# Webster's Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) – English Thesaurus Dictionary

Edited by Professor Philip M. Parker, Ph.D.

Chaired Professor of Management Science INSEAD (Singapore and Fontainebleau, France)

# Webster's

# Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) – English

Thesaurus Dictionary

# PROCEEDS BENEFIT

# Webster's Online Dictionary (www.websters-online-dictionary.org)

## **EDITED BY**

Philip M. Parker, Ph.D. INSEAD (Fontainebleau & Singapore)

Published by ICON Group International, Inc. 7404 Trade St San Diego, CA 92122 USA Phone: (858) 635-9410 Fax: (858) 635-9414 iconsubs@san.rr.com

### www.icongrouponline.com

This edition published by ICON Classics in 2008 Printed in the United States of America.

Webster's Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) - English Thesaurus Dictionary

Copyright ©2008 by ICON Group International, Inc.

Copyright ©2008 by Philip M. Parker, INSEAD.

All rights reserved. This book is protected by copyright. No part of it may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise, without written permission from the publisher.

Copying our publications in whole or in part, for whatever reason, is a violation of copyright laws and can lead to penalties and fines. Should you want to copy tables, graphs, or other materials, please contact us to request permission (E-mail: orders@icongroupbooks.com). ICON Group International often grants permission for very limited reproduction of our publications for internal use, press releases, and academic research. Such reproduction requires confirmed permission from ICON Group International, Inc. Neither the Editor nor ICON Group International assume any responsibility for uses of this dictionary, and do not warrant that the definitions or translations are accurate.

Net proceeds are used to improve Webster's Online Dictionary, and the contents of this dictionary have been extracted with permission from Websters's Online Dictionary, **www.websters-online-dictionary.org** (Copyright Philip M. Parker, INSEAD).

ISBN 0-497-83746-3

# **PREFACE**

This is an English thesaurus designed for Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) speakers who wish to better understand the ambiguities and richness of the English language. The first chapter is a full English thesaurus organized by 5560 Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) subject words. For each Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) subject word, one or more corresponding English subject words (translations) are provided. Synonyms are then given for the English translations for all relevant parts of speech (even in cases where the Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) subject word has a unique part of speech). This process results in over 16270 English synonyms.

The second chapter gives an index of these English synonyms back to the Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) subject words (a potentially useful chapter to English speakers interested in basic Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) vocabulary). The third chapter has short vocabulary lists organized by parts-of-speech. English teachers or students can use these bilingual lists to create flash cards, basic lesson plans, and English as a Second Language (ESL) study lists.

While creating an English thesaurus for Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) speakers seems simple enough, it can be tricky. What's the problem? Translations do not always follow strict transitivity. Normally, if a=b and b=c, then c=a. This is not necessarily true in linguistics when b is an English word that has more than one part of speech. For example, "test" is a verb, noun and adjective. What is the correct English synonym for "a" (in Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script)) when "b" (in English) has synonyms ("c") having many parts of speech? Furthermore, what if "a" (in Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script)) is ambiguous and has several translations into English ("b")? This thesaurus embraces this ambiguity by giving as much information to the reader as possible. This was accomplished in two phases. In the first phase, maximum-likelihood English translations of the Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) subject words are given. For all the languages covered in Webster's Online Dictionary translations are determined using rather massive content analyses of translations from various sources including translations of United Nations documents, translations of the Holy Bible (and similar sources), training manuals, popular works, and academic sources. An English translation

having the highest probability of being used is reported first, then the second most probable is reported second, and so on.

In the second phase, English synonyms for all parts of speech, including those not related to the original Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) subject, are given for each English translation generated by the first phase. If an English entry is most used as a certain part of speech (estimated based on an English language corpus), then English synonyms for that part of speech are listed first. This indicates to the speaker of Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) how the English subject word is most used. Other parts of speech are listed based on their frequency of usage in English. Within each part of speech, synonyms most likely to be used in English are listed first. Readers who seek further information on any of the words in this book, including translations to other world languages, can freely refer to Webster's Online Dictionary (www.websters-online-dictionary.org).

The goal of Webster's Online Dictionary is to give all people of the world free access to a complete mapping of all known words to and from all written languages. In fulfillment of this goal, Webster's Online Dictionary (www.websters-online-dictionary.org) also offers as much information as possible for each word, including definitions, translations, images, trade name usage, quotations, and encyclopedic knowledge. The proceeds generated by the sale of this Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script)–English thesaurus dictionary as well as other books extracted from the project will be used to augment the contents of the Webster's Online Dictionary.

This book may be the first Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script)-English thesaurus ever published. All the errors and omissions are mine. I will certainly revise and improve this book at some later date, so if you wish to see better editions published in the future, please send any suggestions, corrections, or translations to webstersedits2@hotmail.com. Thank you for purchasing this book and supporting Webster's Online Dictionary.

Philip M. Parker, Ph.D., editor Chair Professor of Management Science INSEAD (Singapore & Fontainebleau, France)

# **CONTENTS**

| UKRAINIAN (CYRILLIC SCRIPT) TO ENGLISH THESAURUS | 1   |
|--|-----|
| A  |     |
| Б  |     |
| В  |     |
| Γ  |     |
| Ϊ  |     |
| Д  |     |
| Ë  |     |
| $\epsilon$                                       |     |
| Ж  |     |
| 3  |     |
| I  |     |
| Ĭ  |     |
| Й  |     |
| K  |     |
| Л  |     |
| M  |     |
| H  |     |
| O  |     |
| П  |     |
|  |     |
| P  |     |
| C  |     |
| T  |     |
| y  |     |
| Φ  |     |
| X  |     |
| Ц  |     |
| Ч  |     |
| Ш  |     |
| Щ  |     |
| Ю  | 456 |

| INDEX OF ENGLISH SUBJECTS TO UKRAINIAN (CYRILLIC SO | CRIPT) |
|---|--------|
| Subjects  | ,      |
| A   | 461    |
|   |        |
| В   |        |
| C   |        |
| D   |        |
| E   |        |
| F   |        |
| G   |        |
| Н   |        |
| I   | 495    |
| J   | 498    |
| K   | 499    |
| L   | 500    |
| M   | 502    |
| N   | 505    |
| O   | 507    |
| Р   | 510    |
| 0   | 516    |
| Ř   | 517    |
| S   |        |
| T   |        |
| U   |        |
| V   |        |
| W   |        |
| Υ   |        |
| Z   |        |
| L   |        |
| No output Land                                      | E 41   |
| VOCABULARY STUDY LISTS                              | 541    |
| Verbs (Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) - English)       | 541    |
| Verbs (English - Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script))       |        |
| Nouns (Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) - English)       |        |
| Nouns (English - Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script))       |        |
| Adverbs (Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) - English)     |        |
| Adverbs (English - Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script))     |        |
| Adjectives (Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) - English)  |        |
| Adjectives (English - Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script))  |        |
| rajectives (English Oktahlah (Cyrinic Script))      |        |

# Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) to English Thesaurus

### Α

- a 1. and; synonyms (conj) with, (adv) also, additionally, (prep) plus, including, (adj) more, 2. but; synonyms (conj) while, (adv) alone, only, though, barely, however, merely, simply, yet, exclusively, if, just, (prep) besides, except, excluding.
- **абатство** abbey; *synonyms* (*n*) convent, monastery, church, priory, clergyman, (*v*) cloister.
- **AG3AII** paragraph; *synonyms* (n) article, item, section, chapter, head, division, part, piece, sentence, count, (ν) clause, passage.
- a60 1. or (чи); synonyms (conf) otherwise, (n) operation, surgery, (prep) before, ere, 2. either; synonyms (det) any, (conf) other.
- aбopt abortion; synonyms (n) miscarriage, failure, fiasco, abortive, aborsement, castling, freak, termination, aborting, blunder, disappointment, incompletion, misadventure.
- **абсолют** absolute; *synonyms* (*adj*) downright, peremptory, total, unconditional, categorical, full, real, unqualified, utter, actual, arbitrary, authoritative, certain, complete, (*n*) positive; *antonyms* (*adj*) partial, qualified.
- абсолютний 1. absolute; synonyms (adj) downright, peremptory, total, unconditional, categorical, full, real, unqualified, utter, actual, arbitrary, authoritative, certain, complete, (n) positive; antonyms (adj) partial, qualified, 2. utter; synonyms (adj) absolute, (v) express, say, articulate, breathe, speak, state, tell, declare, deliver, emit, pronounce, talk, voice, reveal, 3. sheer; synonyms (adj) pure, mere, bold, diaphanous, filmy, gauzy, gossamer, simple, steep, transparent, regular, perpendicular, filmsy, (n) perfect, entire; antonyms (adj) gentle, thick, 4. stark; synonyms (adj) austere, bare, bleak, desolate, plain, severe, bald, barren, harsh, sheer, naked, nude, hollow, empty, hard.
- абсолютно 1. absolutely; synonyms (adv) surely, utterly, categorically, completely, dead, decidedly, definitely, entirely, exactly, fully, just, precisely, purely, (int) positively, certainly; antonyms (adv) partially, doubtfully, partly, 2. quite; synonyms (adv) altogether, absolutely, all, sheer, enough, even, fairly, rather, right, stark, totally, well, wholly, awfully, far; antonym (adv) extremely.
- AGCOPSILIA absorption; synonyms (n) assimilation, attention, concentration, inhalation, engrossment, ingestion, preoccupation, abstraction, amalgamation, interest.

- **абстрактний** abstract; *synonyms* (*adj*) theoretical, academic, (*v*) abridge, filch, extract, lift, (*n*) synopsis, abridgement, digest, epitome, summary, abridgement, brief, outline, precis; *antonym* (*adj*) concrete.
- **абсурдний** absurd (безглуздий); *synonyms* (*adj*) foolish, preposterous, ridiculous, unreasonable, irrational, crazy, derisory, illogical, incredible, inept, ludicrous, meaningless, nonsensical, outrageous, senseless; *antonym* (*adj*) sensible.
- **ΑΒαΗΓΑΡ** J. Van; *synonyms* (n) caravan, vehicle, front, truck, vanguard, carriage, car, bus, conveyance, head, (ν) automobile. train.
- **abahc** advance; *synonyms* (n) progress, improvement, (v) further, proceed, promote, approach, encourage, raise, rise, boost, contribute, cultivate, develop, forward, (phr) accelerate; *antonyms* (n) deterioration, (v) retreat, recede, delay, demote, regress.
- ABAHCYBATH advance; synonyms (n) progress, improvement, (ν) further, proceed, promote, approach, encourage, raise, rise, boost, contribute, cultivate, develop, forward, (phr) accelerate; antonyms (n) deterioration, (ν) retreat, recede, delay, demote, regress.
- **авантюра** adventure (пригода); *synonyms* (*n*) venture, accident, chance, escapade, event, incident, undertaking, consequence, essay, circumstance, enterprise, experience, (*v*) hazard, risk, dare.
- **аварійний 1.** emergency; *synonyms* (*n*) crisis, contingency, exigency, accident, need, pinch, casualty, disaster, demand, circumstance, emergence, predicament, adventure, catastrophe, (*adj*) extra, **2**. jury; *synonyms* (*n*) board, panel, adjudicators, group, team, council, venire.
- **aBapis 1**. casualty; *synonyms* (*n*) accident, loss, prey, damage, disaster, fatality, chance, circumstance, contingency, death, misfortune, victim, adventure, hazard, **2**. accident; *synonyms* (*n*) casualty, coincidence, crash, fortune, event, fortuity, hap, incident, luck, smash, catastrophe, destiny, emergency, fact, haphazard, **3**. emergency; *synonyms* (*n*) crisis, exigency, need, pinch, demand, emergence, predicament, pass, (*adi*) extra.
- **ABehio** avenue; *synonyms* (n) channel, approach, passage, path, road, route, way, means, boulevard, course, lane, track, walk, outlet.
- авжеж certainly; *synonyms* (*adv*) assuredly, surely, necessarily, definitely, really, sure, truly, inevitably, absolutely, clearly, exactly, indeed, indubitably, positively, (*int*) yes; *antonyms* (*adv*) doubtfully, questionably.
- ABIAKOMIIAHIЯ airline; synonym (n) airway. ABIAJIHIЯ airline; synonym (n) airway.
- **ABIAHOCEЦЬ** carrier; *synonyms* (n) bearer, messenger, courier, mailman, porter, postman, vehicle, transport, envoy, bag, channel, container, emissary, newsboy, solvent.
- **aBiaція 1**. aviation; *synonyms* (*n*) air, flight, airwave, atmosphere, aura, ballooning, aerodynamics, breeze, line, melody, piloting, strain, tune, zephyr, **2**. aircraft; *synonyms* (*n*) airplane, airliner, craft, plane, vessel, airship, blimp, boat, dirigible, hydroplane, jumbo, vehicle, zeppelin, jet, seaplane.

- **ABI3O** advice; *synonyms* (n) admonition, caution, counsel, warning, exhortation, instruction, intelligence, monition, notice, report, tidings, advisement, announcement, communication, direction.
- **АВТЕНТИЧНИЙ** authentic; *synonyms* (*adj*) actual, genuine, accurate, real, right, straight, believable, true, trustworthy, valid, unfeigned, unsophisticated, credible, factual, (*v*) authoritative; *antonyms* (*adj*) bogus, fake, unrealistic
- abto6yc 1. bus; synonyms (n) automobile, autobus, car, coach, vehicle, busbar, charabanc, motorbus, omnibus,
  2. coach; synonyms (n) trainer, tutor, instructor, teacher, bus, carriage, stagecoach, cart, director, lecturer, (v) train, educate, groom, instruct, (adj) prime.
- **ABTOΓPAΦ** signature; *synonyms* (n) autograph, mark, endorsement, earmark, ratification, stamp, acceptance, completion, imprint, indorsement, scale, seal, serif, shank, (v) sign.
- **ABTOMAFICTPAJIb** motorway; *synonyms* (n) expressway, freeway, superhighway, throughway, thruway, pike.
- **автоматичний 1**. automatic; *synonyms* (*adj*) instinctive, involuntary, automated, mechanical, reflex, spontaneous, unconscious; *antonyms* (*adj*) manual, deliberate, voluntary, **2**. mechanical; *synonyms* (*adj*) automatic, unthinking, habitual, mechanic, mechanized, perfunctory, routine, industrial, (*v*) blind.
- автоматично automatically; synonyms (adv) mechanically, essentially, impulsively, inevitably, instinctively, necessarily, obediently, unavoidably, unthinkingly, certainly, insentience, intuitively, involuntarily, perfunctorily, reflexively; antonyms (adv) deliberately, consciously, physically.
- автомобіль 1. car; synonyms (n) automobile, auto, carriage, coach, truck, vehicle, tramcar, coupe, jalopy, gondola, machine, motorcar, railcar, limousine, 2. vehicle; synonyms (n) medium, instrument, means, channel, transport, carrier, transportation, agent, car, intermedium, intervention, mediation, platform.
- **автономія** autonomy; *synonyms* (n) independence, freedom, autocracy, liberty, sovereignty; *antonym* (n) dependence.
- **автономний** autonomous; *synonyms* (*adj*) independent, sovereign, autonomic, free, separate; *antonym* (*adj*) dependent.
- abtop 1. author; synonyms (n) writer, architect, creator, founder, inventor, originator, parent, producer, father, generator, maker, dramatist, (v) compose, create, write,
  2. writer; synonyms (n) author, journalist, poet, penman, commentator, playwright, correspondent, reporter.
- **авторитет** authority (влада); *synonyms* (n) ascendancy, command, sanction, administration, authorization, dominance, domination, hold, judge, power, professional, rule, warrant, lordship, agency.
- **авторитетний** authoritative; *synonyms* (*adj*) official, absolute, authoritarian, authorized, commanding, imperious, influential, magistral, powerful, authorised, certain, definitive, dictatorial, (*n*) authentic, (*v*) departmental; *antonym* (*adj*) informal.

- arent 1. agent; synonyms (n) agency, broker, deputy, medium, factor, instrument, mediator, ambassador, attorney, channel, delegate, doer, envoy, intermediary, (v) actor, 2. broker; synonyms (n) agent, go-between, middleman, dealer, bailff, merchant, 3. factor; synonyms (n) component, divisor, element, ingredient, part, consideration, feature, parameter, point, item, steward, dividend, fact, (adf) constituent.
- **arentrebo** agency; *synonyms* (n) bureau, office, authority, commission, expedient, factor, instrument, means, organ, way, efficiency, activity, board, (v) action, act.
- **агонія** agony; *synonyms* (*n*) anguish, torture, distress, misery, suffering, torment, grief, pain, pang, passion, sorrow, throe, ache, affliction, martyrdom.
- AΓΡΕΓΑΤ 1. aggregate; synonyms (adj) sum, aggregative, all, collective, (n) total, agglomerate, whole, complex, pile, combination, compound, (v) accumulate, cluster, amount, collect; antonyms (n) individual, part,
   2. assembly; synonyms (n) gathering, meeting, collection, congregation, convention, fabrication, multitude, assembling, body, chamber, company, conclave, concourse, congress, (v) assemblage.
- **агресивний** aggressive; *synonyms* (*adj*) belligerent, active, energetic, enterprising, hostile, invasive, offensive, pushy, warlike, strong, strenuous, assertive, dynamic, militant, pugnacious; *antonyms* (*adj*) peaceful, friendly, peaceable, passive, peace-loving, suspicious.
- **AFPECUBHICTL** aggression; *synonyms* (*n*) hostility, incursion, offensive, onset, onslaught, aggressiveness, antagonism, assault, attack, invasion, offense; *antonym* (*n*) friendliness.
- arpecia aggression; synonyms (n) hostility, incursion, offensive, onset, onslaught, aggressiveness, antagonism, assault, attack, invasion, offense; antonym (n) friendliness.
- AAAITALIS adaptation; synonyms (n) accommodation, adjustment, alteration, version, reworking, adaption, conversion, fitness, modification, variation.
- **адаптувати** adapt; *synonyms* (*v*) adjust, accommodate, acclimate, fashion, alter, arrange, assimilate, change, edit, familiarize, gear, modify, shape, suit, (*adj*) fit.
- адвокат 1. attorney; *synonyms* (*n*) advocate, lawyer, agent, counsel, counselor, factor, solicitor, representative, auctioneer, underwriter, advisor, bailiff, clerk, go-between, investigator, 2. lawyer; *synonyms* (*n*) attorney, leguleian, beagle, brief, defender, fixer, mouthpiece, pettifogger, proctor, shyster, 3. counsellor; *synonyms* (*n*) mentor, pleader, counselling, advocator, counseling, leader, direction, exponent, guidance, proponent.
- AJBOKATYPA bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow.
- AДЕКВАТНИЙ adequate; synonyms (adj) sufficient, acceptable, enough, right, condign, effectual, passable, satisfactory, agreeable, competent, decent, equal, fair, fit, full; antonyms (adj) inadequate, insufficient, unsatisfactory.

- **адміністративний** administrative; *synonyms* (*adj*) departmental, official, managerial, authoritative, (*v*) executive.
- АДМІНІСТРАТИВНО-ГОСПОДАРСЬКИЙ administrative; *synonyms* (*adj*) departmental, official, managerial, authoritative, (*v*) executive.
- agministrator; synonyms (n) executive, director, manager, boss, officer, official, supervisor, governor, principal, ruler, superintendent, 2. manager; synonyms (n) administrator, coach, head, leader, chief, controller, handler, superior, conductor, entrepreneur, guide, inspector, master, owner, trainer; antonym (n) underling.
- адміністрація 1. administration; synonyms (n) management, direction, organization, running, power, execution, executive, government, leadership, reign, rule, supervision, department, application, incumbency,
  2. management; synonyms (n) administration, conduct, guidance, command, control, handling, charge, treatment, behavior, steerage, disposition, arrangement, order, oversight, (v) manage.
- appec address; synonyms (n) accost, lecture, abode, discourse, residence, skill, speech, allocution, greeting, oration, sermon, (v) greet, call, harangue, speak; antonym (v) ignore.
- адреса address; synonyms (n) accost, lecture, abode, discourse, residence, skill, speech, allocution, greeting, oration, sermon, (v) greet, call, harangue, speak; antonym (v) ignore.
- адресувати address; synonyms (n) accost, lecture, abode, discourse, residence, skill, speech, allocution, greeting, oration, sermon, (v) greet, call, harangue, speak; antonym (v) ignore.
- **аероплан** aeroplane; *synonyms* (n) airplane, plane, airship, sheet.
- **aeponopt** airport; *synonyms* (n) aerodrome, airdrome, runway, airstrip, depot, destination, harbor, haven, port, station, hangar, helipad, installation, spaceport, strip.
- AEPOCTAT balloon; synonyms (n) bubble, (v) ball, inflate, billow, bloat, bulge, distend, soar, swell, fly, expand, increase; antonym (v) deflate.
- **азіатський** oriental; *synonyms* (*adj*) orient, eastern, bright, lustrous, perfect, pure, superior, (*n*) orientalist. **азот** nitrogen; *synonyms* (*n*) n, newton, normality, north.
- AKAДЕМІЧНИЙ academic; synonyms (adj) theoretical, learned, pedantic, scholarly, speculative, studious, bookish, didactic, educational, erudite, (n) intellectual, academician, scholar, (v) scholastic, hypothetical; antonym (n) realist.
- академія academy; *synonyms* (*n*) academe, school, college, institution, university, academia, campus, class, alliance, council, federation, foundation, fraternity, league, preparatory.
- **АКВАРЕЛЬ 1.** water (вода); *synonyms* (*n*) urine, moisture, juice, liquor, crystal, glass, lymph, pee, piddle, (*v*) irrigate, moisten, wet, soak, dampen, dilute, **2.** wash; *synonyms* (*v*) rinse, paint, bathe, clean, lave, mop, scour, scrub, color, tint, lap, gargle, (*n*) ablution, washing, swamp; *antonym* (*v*) dirty.
- **akbapivm** aquarium; *synonyms* (n) vivarium, (v) fishery.

- **АКОР**Д chord; *synonyms* (n) cord, harmony, curve, flange, enticement, (v) accord, harmonise, harmonize, agree, consort, reconcile, (adj) subtense.
- **AKCECYAPH** accessories; *synonyms* (*n*) acreage, grounds, manor, plot. **AKCECYAPH** accessories; *synonyms* (*n*) fittings, equipment, accompaniments, garnishes, possession, trimmings, accouterments, frills, garnishing, trappings.
- **akt** act; *synonyms* (*n*) accomplishment, action, move, play, statute, decree, do, feat, (*v*) achievement, behave, deed, go, perform, acquit, enact; *antonym* (*v*) refrain.
- **AKTUB** assets; *synonyms* (n) property, belongings, capital, funds, means, resources, wealth, finances, resource, estate, money, possession, possessions, acquit, income.
- **активація** activation; *synonyms* (*n*) activating, start, initiation, launch, awakening, commencement, creation, energizing, establishment, foundation, inauguration, opening, spur, instigation, introduction.
- **активний** active; *synonyms* (*adj*) energetic, alert, busy, diligent, effective, live, lively, nimble, strong, agile, alive, brisk, dynamic, forcible, healthy; *antonyms* (*adj*) dormant, inactive, sluggish, idle, latent, lethargic, sedentary, slow, extinct, passive, quiet.
- **AKTUBHICTЬ** activity; *synonyms* (n) action, activeness, exercise, liveliness, play, job, agency, agility, diligence, energy, enterprise, industry, life, movement, occupation; *antonyms* (n) inactivity, inaction, inactiveness.
- **активно** actively; *synonyms* (*adv*) busily, energetically, ardently, eagerly, warmly, willingly, zealously, diligently, actually, conscientiously, deliverly, doggedly, hard, heartily, persistently.
- **aktrop 1.** actor; *synonyms* (n) doer, player, agent, comedian, thespian, artist, artiste, entertainer, histrion, impersonator, mimic, participant, (v) performer, 2. player; *synonyms* (n) musician, actor, contestant, instrumentalist, competitor, athlete, entrant.
- **актриса** actress; *synonyms* (n) actor, player, artist, entertainer, musician, recitalist.
- **актуальний** actual; *synonyms* (*adj*) real, absolute, true, factual, genuine, authentic, existent, indisputable, literal, positive, precise, tangible, veritable, very, (*n*) accurate; *antonyms* (*adj*) false, hypothetical, supposed.
- AKYMYJISTOP battery; synonyms (n) troop, army, barrage, company, collection, mugging, onslaught, sequence, squad, violence, group, regiment, squadron, ark, battalia.
- AKYMYJIHUIA accumulation; synonyms (n) store, stock, accretion, mass, accrual, accruement, batch, hoard, pile, reserve, deposit, addition, aggregation, assemblage, (v) gain; antonym (n) shortage.
- акуратний 1. neat; synonyms (adj) adroit, elegant, clear, natty, tidy, graceful, dainty, clean, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, methodical, nifty, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered, 2. careful; synonyms (adj) accurate, attentive, thrifty, alert, deliberate, economical, frugal, mindful, prudent, thoughtful, assiduous, aware, cagey, cautious, (v) anxious; antonyms (adj) careless, reckless, slapdash, neglectful.

- **AKYPATHICTB** precision; *synonyms* (n) accuracy, correctness, exactness, accurateness, preciseness, fidelity, definiteness, delicacy, exactitude, meticulousness, nicety, truth, clarity, attention, (adj) precise; *antonyms* (n) inaccuracy, vagueness, ambiguity, imprecision.
- **AKYPATHO** neatly; *synonyms* (*adv*) adroitly, cleanly, gracefully, dexterously, fitly, nattily, tastefully, aptly, elegantly, prettily, cleverly, closely, comptly, deftly, (*adj*) nimbly; *antonyms* (*adv*) messily, shabbily, untidily.
- **акустичний** acoustic; *synonyms* (*adj*) acoustical, aural, phonic, hearing, sensory, (*v*) auditory, auricular.
- **aktieht 1**. accent; *synonyms* (*n*) stress, dialect, emphasis, idiom, importance, speech, accentuation, articulation, intonation, pronunciation, (*v*) emphasize, emphasise, punctuate, accentuate, pronounce, **2**. emphasis; *synonyms* (*n*) accent, prominence, import, intensity, significance, vehemence, weight.
- **AKIJIOHEP** shareholder; *synonyms* (n) participant, shareowner, stockholder, saver, depositor.
- AKIJIS 1. action; synonyms (n) act, accomplishment, activity, agency, battle, deed, effect, engagement, fight, movement, performance, play, behavior, case, (v) achievement; antonyms (n) inaction, inactivity, 2. share; synonyms (n) piece, portion, deal, dole, lot, allotment, (v) participate, allot, apportion, distribute, part, partake, dispense, divide, partition; antonym (v) control.
- **алгоритм** algorithm; *synonyms* (*n*) algorism, discovery, (*v*) dactylonomy, rhabdology.
- a.ne 1. but; synonyms (conj) while, (adv) alone, only, though, barely, however, merely, simply, yet, exclusively, if, just, (prep) besides, except, excluding, 2. and; synonyms (conj) with, (adv) also, additionally, (prep) plus, including, (adj) more, 3. however; synonyms (adv) but, although, anyway, nevertheless, how, nonetheless, notwithstanding, anyhow, still, (conj) albeit, even, eventually, (adj) howsoever.
- AJIEЯ 1. walk (ходити); synonyms (v) ramble, course, hike, move, roam, travel, trek, go, (n) step, gait, pace, path, saunter, stroll, excursion, 2. avenue; synonyms (n) channel, approach, passage, road, route, way, means, boulevard, lane, track, walk, outlet.
- алкоголь alcohol; *synonyms* (*n*) drink, juice, intoxicant, drinkable, firewater, potable, essence, gas, gasohol, gasoline, inebriant, nitromethane, oil, petrol, (*v*) alcoholism.
- **АЛЛО** hello; *synonyms* (n) greeting, hi, howdy, hullo, welcome, (v) hail.
- **AJIMA3** diamond; *synonyms* (n) adamant, lozenge, infield, rhombus, square, rectangle, (adj) jewel, bijou.
- AJMA3HUÑ diamond; synonyms (n) adamant, lozenge, infield, rhombus, square, rectangle, (adj) jewel, bijou.
- **альбом** album; *synonyms* (n) record, portfolio, recording, volume, anthology, disc, book, collection, compilation, set, vinyl, depository, index, memento, miscellany.
- альтернатива 1. alternative; *synonyms* (*adj*) alternate, alternating, variant, (*n*) option, choice, preference, selection, substitute, variation, 2. choice; *synonyms* (*n*)

- vote, alternative, favorite, election, pick, pleasure, volition, assortment, elite, (adj) best, excellent, select, exclusive, exquisite, (v) chosen; antonym (adj) inferior.
- **альтернативний** alternative; *synonyms* (*adj*) alternate, alternating, variant, (*n*) option, choice, preference, selection, substitute, variation.
- альтернативно alternatively; synonyms (adv) eccentrically, instead, rather, unusually, curiously, oddly, originally, quirkily, strangely.
- **Альфа** alpha; *synonyms* (n) start, origin, beginning, initial, dawn, genesis.
- альянс alliance; synonyms (n) connection, league, affinity, association, combination, confederacy, union, affiliation, alignment, alinement, coalition, merger, organization, society, amalgamation; antonym (n) nonalignment.
- алюміній aluminium; synonym (n) aluminum.
- алюміній aluminium; synonym (n) aluminum.
- **AJIOP** step; *synonyms* (n) degree, measure, stage, walk, gait, gradation, level, rank, act, footprint, footstep, move, stride, (v) pace, proceeding.
- **amatop 1.** amateur; *synonyms* (*adj*) amateurish, inexpert, unskilled, inexperienced, untrained, unqualified, (*n*) novice, beginner, fan, apprentice, aspirant, devotee, lover, greenhorn; *antonyms* (*adj*) practiced, (*n*) professional, expert, **2.** lover; *synonyms* (*n*) dear, darling, beau, admirer, buff, love, beloved, amorist, man, pet, sweetheart, gallant, boyfriend, enthusiast, follower.
- **amбap** barn; *synonyms* (n) shed, store, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (adj) foul, unclean.
- AMБACAДA embassy (посольство); synonyms (n) deputation, legation, delegation, mission, commission, errand, cable, communication, diplomat, diplomatist.
- **АМБІЦІЙНИЙ** ambitious; *synonyms* (*adj*) aspiring, difficult, eager, energetic, vaulting, challenging, competitive, desirous, enterprising, grandiose, pushy.
- **ambition**; *synonyms* (n) aspiration, aim, ambitiousness, dream, drive, goal, hope, objective, purpose, target, wish, intention, design, desire, eagerness; *antonym* (n) apathy.
- **АМЕРИКАНЦІ** nation (нація); *synonyms* (*n*) state, country, kingdom, commonwealth, community, land, people, nationality, public, tribe, clan, folk, republic, race, territory.
- **amhictis** amnesty; *synonyms* (n) pardon, absolution, forgiveness, remission, clemency, condonation, grace, mercy, reprieve, (v) forgive; *antonym* (n) blame.
- **AMOPTU3ATOP** buffer; *synonyms* (n) safeguard, pad, protection, bumper, fender, shield, block, (v) cushion.
- aHaлi3 analysis; synonyms (n) anatomy, breakdown, decomposition, inquiry, inspection, investigation, psychoanalysis, resolution, review, scrutiny, study, exploration, calculation, diagnosis, examination; antonym (n) synthesis.
- **аналізувати** analyse; *synonyms* (*v*) analyze, canvass, dissect, examine, study, psychoanalyse, psychoanalyze, canvas, collapse, contemplate, crumble, crumple, crush, die, (*n*) analyser.
- **аналітик** analyst; *synonyms* (n) psychoanalyst, analyzer, expert, psychiatrist, examiner, commentator, accountant,

- authority, chemist, counselor, critic, detective, forecaster, investigator, observer.
- **аналітичний** analytical; *synonyms* (*adj*) analytic, critical, curious, inquisitive, logical, methodical, rational, systematic; *antonym* (*adj*) illogical.
- **АНАЛОГІЧНИЙ** analogous; *synonyms* (*adj*) alike, similar, akin, analogical, comparable, corresponding, equivalent, like, parallel, cognate, correspondent, related, matching; *antonym* (*adj*) dissimilar.
- аналогія 1. analogy; synonyms (n) semblance, agreement, correspondence, parity, resemblance, similarity, affinity, comparison, likeness, parallel; antonym (n) dissimilarity, 2. correspondence; synonyms (n) conformity, accord, communication, connection, coincidence, concord, analogy, congruity, equality, equivalence, parallelism, symmetry, balance, consistency, association; antonyms (n) difference, asymmetry.
- анальний anal; synonyms (adj) delicat, delicate, demanding, exacting, fastidious, finical, finicky, meticulous, nice, podical, strict, dainty, difficult, fussy, lickerish.
- **ahrap** shed; *synonyms* (v) cast, discard, drop, moult, scatter, exuviate, molt, dismiss, disgorge, emit, fling, (n) hut, shack, cabin, booth.
- ангел angel; synonyms (n) seraph, backer, benefactor, messenger, patron, saint, darling, (v) sponsor, support; antonym (n) fiend.
- **AHI** not; *synonyms* (*adv*) no, nay, nor, nowise, never, (*adj*) shaven, shorn.
- **анкета** questionnaire; *synonyms* (*n*) form, document, enclosure, examination, paper, test, sheet.
- анонімний anonymous; synonyms (adj) nameless, unknown, unnamed, unidentified, authorless, unacknowledged, undisclosed, unspecified, incognito, unfamiliar, hidden, indefinite, mysterious, nondescript, private; antonym (adj) known.
- **AHOHC** advertisement; *synonyms* (n) announcement, declaration, ad, advert, advertising, bill, circular, notice, publication, advertizement, advertizing, placard, poster.
- **АНОРМАЛЬНИЙ** abnormal; *synonyms* (*adj*) aberrant, anomalous, atypical, irregular, monstrous, odd, perverted, strange, uncommon, unnatural, unusual, perverse, improper, preternatural, grotesque; *antonyms* (*adj*) normal, typical, usual.
- **антена** aerial; *synonyms* (*adj*) airy, aery, ethereal, unreal, insubstantial, aeriform, (*n*) antenna.
- антитіло antibody; synonyms (n) antitoxin, germ, ab. АНТИЧНИЙ 1. ancient; synonyms (adj) aged, old, antiquated, obsolete, former, past, antique, archaic, bygone, hoary, primitive, olden, antediluvian, dated, (n) elder; antonym (adj) modern, 2. antique; synonyms (adj) ancient, antiquarian, musty, outmoded, quaint, outdated, demode, old-fashioned, passe, (n) relic, antiquity, (v) antiquate; antonym (n) new.
- AHTPAKT interval; synonyms (n) intermission, interruption, break, distance, interlude, hiatus, gap, interim, pause, period, respite, span, length, cessation, rest
- **AHTPEIIPEHEP** promoter; *synonyms* (*n*) backer, advocate, booster, sponsor, patron, forwarder, friend,

- proponent, showman, supporter, champion, impresario, plugger, (v) artist, projector.
- **антропологія** anthropology; *synonyms* (n) anthroposophy, entomology, helminthology, herpetology, ichthyology, malacology, mastology, ophiology, ornithology, oryctology, paleontology, vermeology, folklore, sociology.
- **анулювання 1**. cancel; *synonyms* (*v*) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (*adj*) abolish, nullify; *antonym* (*v*) validate, **2**. cancellation; *synonyms* (*n*) annulment, abolition, cancel, negation, recall, termination, retirement, annulling, omission, circumduction, receipt, renunciation, abandoning, abolishing, circumlocution, **3**. abolition; *synonyms* (*n*) abolishment, destruction, ending, annihilation, cancellation, eradication; *antonym* (*n*) reinstatement.
- анулювати 1. cancel; synonyms (v) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (adj) abolish, nullify; antonym (v) validate, 2. withdraw; synonyms (v) extract, remove, retire, retract, retreat, abandon, cancel, disengage, draw, leave, recall, recede, secede, depart, go; antonyms (v) advance, extend, give, offer, present, propose, deposit, 3. avoid; synonyms (v) shun, avert, parry, escape, evade, abstain, circumvent, duck, elude, forbear, fudge, ignore, prevent, shirk, (adj) eschew; antonyms (v) confront, associate, face, tackle, 4. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag. (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk. dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow, 5. defeat; synonyms (n) frustration, ruin, beating, (v) crush, overcome, beat, conquer, baffle, foil, overpower, repulse, rout, subdue, surmount, (adj) rebuff; antonyms (n) victory, success, win, (v) lose, surrender.
- **anapat 1.** apparatus; *synonyms* (n) appliance, device, implement, instrument, plant, tackle, equipment, gadget, gear, machine, contrivance, machinery, mechanism, outfit, rig, **2.** vehicle; *synonyms* (n) medium, means, automobile, channel, transport, carrier, transportation, agent, car, intermedium, intervention, mediation, platform.
- AΠΑΡΑΤΎΡΑ apparatus (απαρατ); synonyms (n) appliance, device, implement, instrument, plant, tackle, equipment, gadget, gear, machine, contrivance, machinery, mechanism, outfit, rig.
- **апельсин** orange; *synonyms* (*adj*) amber, ocher, orangey, orangish, tawny, ginger, red, (*n*) orangeness, lemon, etc, lime, apricot, bittersweet, coral, peach.
- **апелювати** appeal; *synonyms* (*n*) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (*v*) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; *antonyms* (*n*) unpleasantness, (*v*) repel.
- AHEJЯЦІЯ appeal; synonyms (n) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (v) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; antonyms (n) unpleasantness, (v) repel.
- **апендикс** appendix; *synonyms* (n) addition, adjunct, addendum, annex, appendage, accessory, (v) supplement.
- **апетит** appetite; *synonyms* (n) desire, appetence, appetency, relish, craving, gusto, inclination, liking,

- passion, stomach, taste, thirst, want, appetition, (v) demand; *antonym* (n) dislike.
- **аплікація** application; *synonyms* (*n*) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, demand, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, call. claim.
- **AIITEKAP** chemist; *synonyms* (*n*) apothecary, pharmacist, druggist, pharmaceutist, pharmacy, pharmacopolist, alchemist, chemic, dispensatory, laborant, analyst.
- ap6irp 1. judge; synonyms (n) arbiter, arbitrator, referee, (v) consider, estimate, evaluate, think, believe, condemn, assess, adjudicate, calculate, decide, guess, umpire, 2. referee; synonyms (n) mediator, adjudicator, ref, moderator, intermediary, referendary, (v) judge, arbitrate, mediate, intercede.
- **арбітраж** arbitration; *synonyms* (n) arbitrament, mediation, decision, intervention, judgment, arbitrement.
- apfyment 1. argument; synonyms (n) controversy, debate, matter, proof, reason, hassle, altercation, arguing, brawl, clash, contention, difference, disagreement, discussion, fight; antonyms (n) agreement, harmony, 2. reason; synonyms (n) mind, account, intellect, occasion, argument, object, purpose, rationality, understanding, basis, (v) cause, argue, conclude, deduce, discuss.
- APFYMEHTALIIЯ argument; synonyms (n) controversy, debate, matter, proof, reason, hassle, altercation, arguing, brawl, clash, contention, difference, disagreement, discussion, fight; antonyms (n) agreement, harmony.
- **ΑΡΓΥΜΕΗΤИ** case; *synonyms* (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, (adj) patient.
- **аргументувати** argue; *synonyms* (v) contend, oppose, quarrel, reason, altercate, assert, attest, contest, convince, debate, declare, discuss, expostulate, fight, (n) dispute; *antonyms* (v) agree, deny.
- **арена** arena; *synonyms* (n) ring, battlefield, field, sphere, theater, amphitheater, area, platform, domain, region, scene, stadium, ground.
- **арешт 1**. arrest; synonyms (n) stop, check, halt, apprehension, custody, hold, detention, (ν) capture, catch, apprehend, collar, delay, detain, get, hinder; antonyms (ν) release, discharge, 2. apprehension; synonyms (n) alarm, comprehension, dread, arrest, foreboding, misgiving, trepidation, understanding, appreciation, anticipation, agitation, conception, (adj) anxiety, care, (ν) doubt; antonyms (n) reassurance, confidence, calmness.
- **АРЕШТОВАНИЙ** prisoner; *synonyms* (*n*) convict, captive, hostage, accused, criminal, defendant.
- APEIIITYBATH arrest; synonyms (n) stop, check, halt, apprehension, custody, hold, detention, (ν) capture, catch, apprehend, collar, delay, detain, get, hinder; antonyms (ν) release, discharge.
- аристократичний aristocratic; synonyms (adj) patrician, gentle, autocratic, refined, stylish, aloof, aristocratical, arrogant, blue, condescending, courtly, dignified, disdainful, distinguished, elegant; antonyms (adj) lower-class, blue-collar, popular.

- **аристократія** aristocracy; *synonyms* (*n*) gentility, gentry, nobility, aristarchy, elite, society, aristocrats, government, grandeur, magnanimousness, oligarchy, patriciate
- арка 1. arch; synonyms (n) arc, acute, bend, curvature, dome, archway, (v) curve, bow, vault, (adj) shrewd, sly, wily, round, crafty, consummate; antonym (v) straightness, 2. arc; synonyms (n) arch, crescent, spark, sween
- APKTUKA arctic; *synonyms* (*adj*) freezing, icy, polar, north, frigid, frosty, frozen, northern, cold, gelid, chilly, piercing, (*v*) glacial, boreal, wintry; *antonym* (*adj*) hot.
- **арктичний** arctic; *synonyms* (*adj*) freezing, icy, polar, north, frigid, frosty, frozen, northern, cold, gelid, chilly, piercing, (*v*) glacial, boreal, wintry; *antonym* (*adj*) hot.
- **аркуш 1**. sheet; *synonyms* (n) board, layer, leaf, canvas, film, paper, coat, coating, blanket, cover, coverlet, newspaper, piece, plane, sail, **2**. leaf; *synonyms* (n) blade, page, foliage, folio, leafage, slip, (ν) sheet, leave, flick, flip.
- армія агту; *synonyms* (n) legion, troop, host, battery, battalion, brigade, crowd, flock, force, multitude, service, swarm, war, (adj) military, array.
- **apomat 1.** flavour; *synonyms* (*n*) aroma, savor, smell, feel, feeling, relish, sapidity, savour, smack, tang, taste, tone, (*v*) flavor, season, **2.** odour; *synonyms* (*n*) fragrance, flavour, odor, scent, look, olfaction, smelling, spirit, **3.** scent; *synonyms* (*n*) perfume, bouquet, essence, redolence, odour, incense, clue, trail, clew, key, (*y*) nose, wind, aromatize, snuff. (*adī*) smoke.
- **Арсенал** arsenal; *synonyms* (*n*) armory, armoury, store, depository, arms, armaments, artillery, dump, factory, guns, inventory, missiles, plant, stockpile, storeroom.
- **артикль** article (стаття); synonyms (n) section, object, thing, chapter, clause, commodity, composition, discourse, entity, essay, feature, paper, report, review, story.
- **артилерія** artillery; *synonyms* (n) ordnance, gun, cannonry, dragoon, hussar, uhlan, voltigeur, accelerator, arm, armaments, arms, army, cavalry, firepower, guns.
- **артист** artist (художник); *synonyms* (*n*) actor, artificer, master, player, musician, performer, artisan, creator, entertainer, maker, architect, stylist.
- **артистичний** artistic; *synonyms* (*adj*) esthetic, aesthetic, elegant, ingenious, pleasing, attic, creative, imaginative, inventive, tasteful.
- **археологічний** archaeological; *synonyms* (*adj*) archaeologic, archeologic, archeological.
- **археологія** archaeology; *synonyms* (n) archeology, palaetiology, paleology.
- APXICHICKOII archbishop; *synonyms* (n) metropolitan, bishop, clergyman, elder, eminence, minister, reverence, archdeacon, beneficiary, canon, chaplain, curate, dean, diocesan, (*adj*) primate.
- APXICHICKOH archbishop; synonyms (n) metropolitan, bishop, clergyman, elder, eminence, minister, reverence, archdeacon, beneficiary, canon, chaplain, curate, dean, diocesan, (adj) primate.
- **apxiτeκτop** architect; *synonyms* (n) creator, designer, founder, inventor, maker, originator, producer, artificer,

- author, builder, engineer, generator, manufacturer; *antonym* (*n*) destroyer.
- apxitextypa architecture; synonyms (n) building, frame, constitution, construction, framework, structure, formation, composition, edification, design, carcass, shape, engineering, planning, (v) organism.
- архітектурний architectural; synonym (adj) tectonic.
- ACAMBJIEA assembly; synonyms (n) gathering, meeting, collection, congregation, convention, fabrication, multitude, assembling, body, chamber, cluster, company, conclave, concourse, (v) assemblage.
- ACUFHYBAHHЯ 1. allocation; synonyms (n) allotment, portion, allowance, quota, share, grant, apportioning, apportionment, appropriation, assignment, distribution, measure, part, proportion, ration, 2. assignment; synonyms (n) allocation, appointment, assigning, mission, stint, assignation, business, chore, charge, commission, consignment, designation, duty, job, post.
- **achcreht** assistant; *synonyms* (*adj*) ancillary, adjunct, (*n*) accessory, assist, subordinate, acolyte, accomplice, assistance, auxiliary, colleague, helper, adjutant, aide, associate (*v*) aid
- **acouiauis** association; *synonyms* (*n*) affiliation, alliance, connection, assembly, affinity, company, fellowship, link, partnership, society, syndicate, congress, meeting, band, (*v*) assemblage.
- ACOLINOBAHUM associated; synonyms (adj) connected, related, affiliated, allied, united, attendant, attached, confederate, joined, linked, alike; antonym (adj) unrelated.
- **achert 1.** aspect; *synonyms* (n) appearance, look, surface, bearing, expression, manner, prospect, side, view, air, angle, face, facet, feature, quality, **2.** side; *synonyms* (n) edge, rim, faction, border, brink, direction, part, hand, aspect, margin, page, position, wing, (v) party, (adj) nearby; *antonym* (adj) distant.
- астма asthma; synonym (n) anhelation.
- ataka 1. assault; synonyms (n) attack, aggression, rush, violence, charge, onset, raid, rape, thrust, battery, offensive, (v) assail, storm, invade, violate; antonyms (n) defense, (v) defend, 2. onset; synonyms (n) incursion, assault, beginning, inroad, onslaught, birth, commencement, dawn, onrush, outbreak, invasion, foray, advent, attempt, opening.
- ATAKYBATM 1. assault; synonyms (n) attack, aggression, rush, violence, charge, onset, raid, rape, thrust, battery, offensive, (v) assail, storm, invade, violate; antonyms (n) defense, (v) defend, 2. attack; synonyms (n) incursion, fit, onslaught, seizure, approach, blast, (v) assault, attempt, aggress, accuse, affect, beset, besiege, bombard, censure; antonyms (v) protect, retreat.
- **atectat** certificate; *synonyms* (n) bond, diploma, certification, credential, credentials, document, license, testimonial, warrant, authentication, deed, docket, bill, (v) certify, sanction.
- **атмосфера** 1. atmosphere; *synonyms* (*n*) air, ambience, ambiance, aura, environment, feel, feeling, mood, background, quality, climate, medium, setting, situation, surroundings, 2. climate; *synonyms* (*n*) atmosphere, clime, latitude, milieu, weather.

- **атмосферний** atmospheric; *synonyms* (*adj*) aerial, atmospherical, retiring, light.
- **atom** atom; *synonyms* (n) jot, grain, molecule, particle, speck, mite, bit, corpuscle, crumb, mote, ace, iota.
- **атомний 1**. atomic; *synonyms* (*adj*) minute, infinitesimal, nuclear, tiny, corpuscular, subatomic, thermonuclear, indivisible, minuscule, atomlike, compact, explosive, least, trivial, fissionable; *antonyms* (*adj*) conventional, gigantic, **2**. nuclear; *synonyms* (*adj*) atomic, central, inner, nucleal, organic.
- ATPAKUIOH attraction; *synonyms* (n) allure, enticement, invitation, affinity, allurement, appeal, charm, lure, attractiveness, bait, draw, fascination, inducement, magnetism, temptation; *antonyms* (n) repulsion, disgust, revulsion.
- AУДИТОРІЯ 1. attendance; *synonyms* (*n*) presence, attending, audience, turnout, hearing, tendance, attendancy, bodyguard, crowd, gallery, tendment, assemblage, assembly, congregation, draw; *antonyms* (*n*) absence, nonattendance, 2. audience; *synonyms* (*n*) interview, attendance, house, meeting, audition, following, public, spectators, (*v*) auditory.
- AУДІЄНЦІЯ audience; synonyms (n) hearing, interview, attendance, house, meeting, turnout, audition, congregation, crowd, following, public, spectators, (v) auditory.
- **аукціон** auction; *synonyms* (*n*) bidding, vendue, angle, cant, portsale, bargain, corner, hypocrisy, jam, niche, (*v*) auctioneer, sale, sell, demand, market.
- **АУТЕНТИЧНИЙ** authentic; *synonyms* (*adj*) actual, genuine, accurate, real, right, straight, believable, true, trustworthy, valid, unfeigned, unsophisticated, credible, factual, (*v*) authoritative; *antonyms* (*adj*) bogus, fake, unrealistic.
- **аутсайдер** outsider; *synonyms* (*n*) alien, foreigner, stranger, layman, outlander, newcomer.
- **αφίμια** poster; *synonyms* (*n*) bill, placard, notice, handbill, advertisement, broadside, card, circular, ad, announcement, flyer, posting, sign, (*ν*) affiche.
- ASIKKE 1. absolutely; synonyms (adv) surely, utterly, categorically, completely, dead, decidedly, definitely, entirely, exactly, fully, just, precisely, purely, (int) positively, certainly; antonyms (adv) partially, doubtfully, partly, 2. certainly; synonyms (adv) assuredly, necessarily, really, sure, truly, inevitably, absolutely, clearly, indeed, indubitably, undeniably, undoubtedly, unquestionably, verily, (int) yes; antonym (adv) questionably.

# Б

- **6a6a** 1. grandmother (δαδуся); *synonyms* (n) gran, grandma, granny, crone, grandam, grannie, mother, dam, grandmamma, beldame, mamma, materfamilias, matriarch, 2. woman; *synonyms* (n) wife, girl, maid, womanhood, char, charwoman, soul, (*obj*) female, she; *antonyms* (n) man, gentleman.
- **δαδίχει** grandmother; *synonyms* (n) gran, grandma, granny, crone, grandam, grannie, mother, dam, grandmamma, beldame, mamma, materfamilias, matriarch.
- бавовна cotton; synonyms (n) thread, yarn, cord, fiber, string, affinity, bombace, packthread, rapport, strand, wire, (v) cater, coddle, fawn, (adj) exceptional.
- бавовник cotton; *synonyms* (n) thread, yarn, cord, fiber, string, affinity, bombace, packthread, rapport, strand, wire, (v) cater, coddle, fawn, (adi) exceptional.
- бавовняний cotton; *synonyms* (n) thread, yarn, cord, fiber, string, affinity, bombace, packthread, rapport, strand, wire, (v) cater, coddle, fawn, (adj) exceptional.
- **багаж** luggage; *synonyms* (*n*) baggage, bag, gear, thing, goods, stuff, pack, suitcase, things, case.
- багажник 1. carrier; synonyms (n) bearer, messenger, courier, mailman, porter, postman, vehicle, transport, envoy, bag, channel, container, emissary, newsboy, solvent, 2. boot; synonyms (n) kick, trunk, bang, charge, gain, kicking, shoe, belt, body, thrill, 3. trunk; synonyms (n) stem, boot, torso, bole, proboscis, snout, stalk, box, stock, case, house, luggage, nose, stirps.
- багатий 1. wealthy; synonyms (adj) rich, moneyed, affluent, flush, opulent, prosperous, loaded, substantial, generous, abounding, abundant, ample, monied, successful, thriving; antonyms (adj) poor, impoverished, 2. rich; synonyms (adj) copious, fertile, productive, fruitful, full, deep, fat, luxurious, plentiful, prolific, bright, liberal, heavy, fecund, (v) ornate; antonyms (adj) broke, destitute, light, 3. abundant; synonyms (adj) lush, luxuriant, thick, plenty, teeming, bountiful, considerable, enough, exuberant, fulsome, great, large, lavish, many, much; antonyms (adj) scarce, sparse, meager.
- 6arato 1. much; synonyms (adv) greatly, frequently, almost, awfully, considerably, far, most, often, pretty, highly, (n) lot, heap, (adj) great, considerable, practically; antonym (adv) slightly, 2. many; synonyms (adj) manifold, abundant, countless, frequent, various, innumerable, much, multiple, numerous, plentiful, several, different, numberless, (n) number; antonym (n) few, 3. plenty; synonyms (n) abundance, affluence, copiousness, many, plenteousness, exuberance, opulence, plentitule, galore, flood, multitude, plentifulness, (adj) enough, adequate, ample; antonym (adj) insufficient.
- **багатозначний** significant; *synonyms* (*adj*) important, material, momentous, grave, meaningful, serious, critical, emphatic, expressive, indicative, major,

- pregnant, relevant, (v) considerable, influential; **antonyms** (adj) insignificant, minor, unimportant, small, trivial
- **6αΓαΤΟ3ΗαЧΗΙСΤЬ** significance; *synonyms* (*n*) import, sense, connotation, consequence, meaning, moment, purport, effect, intent, concern, implication, importance, point, weight, gist; *antonyms* (*n*) insignificance, triviality.
- **багатонаціональний** multinational; *synonyms* (*adj*) international, universal, (*n*) company, conglomerate, firm, business, cartel, concern, corporation, establishment, industry, organization, partnership, syndicate, trust; *antonym* (*adj*) insular.
- **δαΓαΤΟΟΘΊΙΙ, HOPE** hopefully; *synonyms* (*adv*) auspiciously, favorably, positively, anxiously, brightly, cheerfully, confidently, eagerly, encouragingly, excitedly, keenly, nicely, sanguinely, well; *antonyms* (*adv*) hopelessly, wearily.
- **багатообіцяючий 1.** hopeful; *synonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, confident, auspicious, bright, optimistic, buoyant, expectant, likely, probable, rosy, sanguine, upbeat, (*n*) candidate, applicant, aspirant; *antonyms* (*adj*) hopeless, desperate, pessimistic, gloomy, pained, **2**. promising; *synonyms* (*adj*) favorable, encouraging, hopeful, propitious, budding, fortunate, potential; *antonyms* (*adj*) unpromising, inauspicious.
- **багаторазовий** multiple; *synonyms* (*adj*) manifold, many, complex, diverse, populous, compound, multiplex, multiplied, multitudinous, various, (*n*) coefficient; *antonym* (*adj*) simple.
- **багатства** wealth; *synonyms* (n) riches, abundance, affluence, opulence, treasure, capital, fortune, property, profusion, mammon, resources, (v) money, gold, (adj) plenty, richness; *antonyms* (n) poverty, penury, scarcity.
- 6afatctbo 1. wealth; synonyms (n) riches, abundance, affluence, opulence, treasure, capital, fortune, property, profusion, mammon, resources, (v) money, gold, (adj) plenty, richness; antonyms (n) poverty, penury, scarcity, 2. fortune; synonyms (n) chance, destiny, estate, fate, fluke, accident, luck, means, assets, doom, lot, wealth, blessing, substance, portion, 3. abundance; synonyms (n) amplitude, exuberance, plenitude, store, breadth, copiousness, enough, fertility, frequency, fullness, luxury, plethora, prosperity, quantity, supply; antonyms (n) dearth, aridity, insufficiency, lack, shortage, 4. means; synonyms (n) expedient, agency, instrument, channel, funds, income, manner, agent, contrivance, device, medium, method, process, resource, way.
- **δαΓαΤΤЯ** fire; *synonyms* (n) discharge, ardor, conflagration, explode, fervor, flame, (ν) excite, eject, blaze, dismiss, ignite, kindle, expel, animate, arouse; *antonym* (ν) hire.
- **6aγaчi** wealthy; *synonyms* (*adj*) rich, moneyed, affluent, flush, opulent, prosperous, loaded, substantial, generous, abounding, abundant, ample, monied, successful, thriving; *antonyms* (*adj*) poor, impoverished.
- **багно 1**. mud; *synonyms* (*n*) dirt, filth, grime, ooze, sludge, soil, swamp, (*adj*) clay, (*v*) mire, muck, **2**. dirt; *synonyms* (*n*) dust, crap, ground, scandal, contamination, smudge, dirtiness, foulness, impurity, land, pollution, smut, squalor, stain, uncleanness.

- **6aγop** pole; *synonyms* (n) perch, bar, picket, post, rod, support, terminal, axle, beam, axis, extremity, pin, baton, column, pillar.
- **багровіти** purple; *synonyms* (*adj*) mauve, violet, imperial, lilac, regal, royal, embellished, majestic, (*n*) empurpled, magenta, purpleness, damask, ermine, mantle, (*v*) empurple.
- **багряний** purple; *synonyms* (*adj*) mauve, violet, imperial, lilac, regal, royal, embellished, majestic, (*n*) empurpled, magenta, purpleness, damask, ermine, mantle, (*v*) empurple.
- бадьорий 1. alive; synonyms (adj) active, live, living, sensible, vivacious, animated, lively, responsive, aware, eager, acute, energetic, animate, awake, extant; antonyms (adj) dead, deceased, inanimate, 2. cheerful; synonyms (adj) buoyant, breezy, blithe, bright, carefree, glad, merry, optimistic, pleasant, airy, brisk, chipper, comfortable, contented, happy; antonyms (adj) depressed, gloomy, sad, unhappy, dejected, depressing, grim, hopeless, miserable, morose, somber, unwelcoming, bleak, cheerless, dull.
- бажаний 1. welcome (вітати); synonyms (adi) acceptable, pleasant, agreeable, pleasing, enjoyable, (v) accept, greet, invite, receive, hail, entertain, (n) salute, hospitality, reception, embrace; antonyms (adj) unwelcome, unwanted, (v) reject, 2. desirable; synonyms (adj) advisable, eligible, expedient, fitting, suitable, worthy, appropriate, alluring, charming, covetable, enviable, fascinating, good, plummy, proper; antonym (adj) undesirable, 3. eligible; synonyms (adj) competent, fit, due, desirable, capable, licensed, experienced, practiced, privileged, single, skilled, trained, unmarried, authorized, (n) bachelor; antonym (adj) ineligible, 4. acceptable; synonyms (adj) adequate, passable, satisfactory, correct, decent, grateful, palatable, permissible, reasonable, sufficient, tolerable, welcome, right, accepted, admissible; antonyms (adj) unacceptable, inadequate, unsatisfactory, disagreeable, forbidden, unbearable.
- бажання 1. wish; synonyms (v) desire, hope, like, aspiration, choose, please, bid, (n) want, need, inclination, longing, aim, pleasure, purpose, (adv) will; antonyms (v) dislike, hate, 2. desire; synonyms (n) ambition, wish, craving, dream, impulse, liking, lust, request, goal, appetite, (v) fancy, aspire, seek, crave, care; antonyms (n) aversion, reality, 3. will; synonyms (v) bequeath, devise, leave, shall, give, spirit, (n) volition, command, determination, resolve, intent, mind, courage, testament, choice.
- 6aжath 1. wish; synonyms (v) desire, hope, like, aspiration, choose, please, bid, (n) want, need, inclination, longing, aim, pleasure, purpose, (adv) will; antonyms (v) dislike, hate, 2. desire; synonyms (n) ambition, wish, craving, dream, impulse, liking, lust, request, goal, appetite, (v) fancy, aspire, seek, crave, care; antonyms (n) aversion, reality, 3. want; synonyms (v) require, (n) lack, poverty, deficiency, deprivation, famine, absence, dearth, demand, destitution, indigence, necessity, penury, privation, shortage, 4. will; synonyms (v) bequeath, devise, leave, shall, give, spirit, (n) volition, command, determination, resolve, intent,

- mind, courage, testament, choice, **5**. please; *synonyms* (v) delight, gratify, amuse, charm, entertain, oblige, enchant, enrapture, accommodate, divert, gladden, indulge, satisfy, (*adj*) enjoy, content; *antonyms* (v) displease, annoy, anger, irritate, distress.
- 6a3a 1. base; synonyms (n) foundation, basis, (adj) bottom, abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, (v) ground, found; antonyms (n) summit, top, (adj) noble, 2. basis; synonyms (n) base, gist, bed, beginning, footing, fundamental, root, cause, cornerstone, derivation, justification, nucleus, reason, motive, essence.
- **6a3ap** market; *synonyms* (*n*) fair, shop, bazaar, marketplace, trade, mart, outlet, store, (*v*) demand, sell, commercialize, exchange, handle, merchandise, sale.
- **базис 1**. base; *synonyms* (*n*) foundation, basis, (*adf*) bottom, abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, (*v*) ground, found; *antonyms* (*n*) summit, top, (*adf*) noble, **2**. basis; *synonyms* (*n*) base, gist, bed, beginning, footing, fundamental, root, cause, cornerstone, derivation, justification, nucleus, reason, motive, essence.
- **базікання** gossip; *synonyms* (*n*) rumor, chitchat, gab, chatterbox, conversation, babble, comment, talk, blabbermouth, (*v*) chat, chatter, natter, tattle, blab, chaffer; *antonym* (*n*) fact.
- **базікати** gossip; *synonyms* (*n*) rumor, chitchat, gab, chatterbox, conversation, babble, comment, talk, blabbermouth, (*v*) chat, chatter, natter, tattle, blab, chaffer; *antonym* (*n*) fact.
- **базовий 1.** basic; *synonyms* (*adj*) first, cardinal, initial, primary, primordial, basal, base, bottom, central, fundamental, introductory, key, necessary, plain, (*n*) essential; *antonyms* (*adj*) secondary, complex, extra, minor, **2.** base; *synonyms* (*n*) foundation, basis, (*adj*) abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, infamous, (*v*) ground, found; *antonyms* (*n*) summit, top, (*adj*) noble.
- **6a3yBaTH** base; *synonyms* (n) foundation, basis, (adj) bottom, abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, (v) ground, found; *antonyms* (n) summit, top, (adj) noble.
- байдикування mike; synonym (n) microphone.

  байдужий 1. indifferent; synonyms (adj) apathetic, callous, cold, cool, fair, impassive, insensible, unconcerned, careless, dull, average, aloof, casual, detached, disinterested; antonyms (adj) caring, enthusiastic, fervent, keen, obsessive, eager, energetic, involved, surprised, 2. neutral; synonyms (adj) impartial, indifferent, dispassionate, impersonal, noncommittal, colorless, inert, objective, unbiased, independent, nonpartisan, unprejudiced, electroneutral, (n) neuter; antonyms (adj) biased, aromatic, colorful.
- **байдужість** indifference; *synonyms* (*n*) apathy, detachment, disregard, impassiveness, aloofness, disinterest, impassivity, neglect, neutrality, nonchalance, unconcern, stoicism, coolness, (*adj*) coldness, phlegm; *antonyms* (*n*) dedication, eagerness, fervor, interest, passion, compassion, favorite, sympathy.

- 6aκ tank; synonyms (n) cistern, reservoir, container, cooler, belly, boiler, fermentor, jail, stomach, store, tankful, thickener, tub, lake, (ν) fake.
- бал ball (м'яч); *synonyms* (n) bulb, globe, shot, shell, bead, baseball, bullet, dance, football, lump, orb, party, pellet, projectile, sphere.
- **балакати 1**. chat; *synonyms* (*n*) gossip, talk, chatter, chitchat, conversation, causerie, confab, gab, rap, (*v*) converse, chaffer, confabulate, prattle, speak, tattle; *antonym* (*v*) listen, **2**. talk; *synonyms* (*v*) lecture, address, articulate, chat, prate, babble, (*n*) discourse, language, colloquy, dialogue, palaver, speech, communication, discussion, parlance.
- **баланс** balance; *synonyms* (n) poise, symmetry, excess, remainder, account, complement, counterpoise, credit, (v) counterbalance, adjust, offset, compensate, contrast, settle, audit; *antonyms* (n) imbalance, (v) unbalance.
- **балансувати** balance; *synonyms* (*n*) poise, symmetry, excess, remainder, account, complement, counterpoise, credit, (*v*) counterbalance, adjust, offset, compensate, contrast, settle, audit; *antonyms* (*n*) imbalance, (*v*) unbalance.
- **балерина** dancer; *synonyms* (n) acrobat, actor, artist, artiste, entertainer, musician, performer, singer, tripper, comedian, excursionist.
- **балет** ballet; *synonyms* (*n*) choreography, afterpiece, burlesque, burletta, comedietta, comedy, divertissement, drama, exode, extravaganza, farce, harlequinade, interlude, opera, pantomime.
- **балка** beam; *synonyms* (*n*) blaze, glow, ray, timber, flash, joist, light, (*v*) glare, air, broadcast, gleam, grin, radiate, smile, (*adj*) shine.
- **балкон 1**. balcony; *synonyms* (*n*) loggia, porch, veranda, arch, terrace, eaves, portico, balcon, cupola, deck, dome, portal, stomach, balustrade, catwalk, **2**. gallery; *synonyms* (*n*) balcony, audience, drift, circle, verandah, auditorium, auditory, boxes.
- 6aπoH 1. balloon; synonyms (n) bubble, (v) ball, inflate, billow, bloat, bulge, distend, soar, swell, fly, expand, increase; antonym (v) deflate, 2. cylinder; synonyms (n) barrel, roll, pipe, tube, column, container, spool, bottle, cask, reel, bolt, can, filling, flask, (adj) cylindroid.
- **балотування 1**. ballot; *synonyms* (*n*) poll, vote, election, choice, plebiscite, voice, balloting, voting, (*v*) ticket, survey, **2**. vote; *synonyms* (*n*) ballot, suffrage, franchise, (*v*) elect.
- **балотувати** ballot; *synonyms* (*n*) poll, vote, election, choice, plebiscite, voice, balloting, voting, (*v*) ticket, survey.
- **банда 1.** gang; *synonyms* (*n*) crew, band, circle, company, crowd, association, bunch, faction, mob, pack, team, assemblage, clique, club, group, **2**. band; *synonyms* (*n*) cluster, party, set, swathe, collar, gang, knot, lace, strap, strip, stripe, zone, (*v*) ring, combine, tie.
- **банк** bank; *synonyms* (*n*) dam, coast, slope, store, limit, stack, bluff, heap, hill, riverside, (*v*) embankment, gradient, deposit, mound, rely; *antonym* (*v*) withdraw.
- **банка** jar; *synonyms* (*n*) jangle, blow, crock, container, jog, shake, amphora, bottle, crash, (*v*) jolt, clash, creak, bump, collide, jounce.

- банківський bank (банк); synonyms (n) dam, coast, slope, store, limit, stack, bluff, heap, hill, riverside, (v) embankment, gradient, deposit, mound, rely; antonym (v) withdraw.
- **банкір** banker; *synonyms* (n) cashier, cambist, teller, investor, capitalist, dealer, financier, goldsmith, moneyer, usurer, backer, broker, croupier, house, manager.
- **банкнота** bill; *synonyms* (n) account, beak, advertisement, card, invoice, poster, receipt, act, banknote, check, measure, (v) placard, advertise, charge, list.
- банкрутство 1. bankruptcy; synonyms (n) failure, insolvency, smash, ruin, indebtedness, recession, closure, depression, poverty, defalcation, default, destituteness, disaster, exhaustion, indigence, 2. crash; synonyms (n) clash, collision, clank, clatter, fall, impact, slam, (v) bang, collapse, break, clang, crack, dash, plunge, ram, 3. failure; synonyms (n) bankruptcy, failing, breakdown, decline, deficiency, debacle, defeat, disappointment, downfall, error, loser, loss, abortion, defect, (v) decay; antonyms (n) success, achievement, hit, winner, victory, achiever, attainment, capability, growth.
- банку bank (банк); synonyms (n) dam, coast, slope, store, limit, stack, bluff, heap, hill, riverside, (v) embankment, gradient, deposit, mound, rely; antonym (v) withdraw.
- **баня** dome; *synonyms* (*n*) cupola, arch, roof, cover, bean, noggin, arena, (*adi*) campanile, column.
- 6ap 1. bar; synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow, 2. saloon; synonyms (n) bar, barroom, pothouse, inn, sedan, taphouse, taproom, tavern, ginmill.
- **барабан 1**. drum; *synonyms* (*n*) barrel, cask, tympan, vat, drumfish, (*v*) beat, roll, bang, knock, pound, ram, thrum, thump, bone, cram, **2**. cylinder; *synonyms* (*n*) pipe, tube, column, container, spool, bottle, reel, bolt, can, filling, flask, record, tin, channel, (*adj*) cylindroid.
- **6apaκ** hut; *synonyms* (n) cabin, cot, booth, hovel, cottage, hutch, lodge, shanty, shed, shack, shelter, stall.
- **6apah 1**. ram; *synonyms* (*n*) tup, (*v*) beat, cram, crash, drive, jam, pack, push, force, fill, bump, pound, press, squeeze, stuff, **2**. sheep (BiBIA); *synonyms* (*n*) mutton, goat, cattle, follower, stock, antelopes, bison, bleater, camels, chevrotains, cloud, deer, giraffes, goats, livestock.
- **барва** colour; *synonyms* (*n*) coloration, coloring, colouring, semblance, vividness, (*v*) color, discolor, discolour, distort, tinge.
- **барвистий** colourful; *synonyms* (*adj*) colorful, coloured. **бард** singer; *synonyms* (*n*) vocalist, musician, warbler, soloist, entertainer, artist, artiste, cantor, composer, conductor, informer, instrumentalist, performer, player, precentor.
- **барель** barrel; *synonyms* (*n*) drum, roll, vessel, barrelful, cask, container, vase, vat, jar, plug, much, pot, bbl, bushel, (*v*) fly.
- **6ap'εp 1**. barrier; *synonyms* (n) barricade, bar, bulwark, dam, handicap, hurdle, obstruction, rampart, restraint,

- block, boundary, fence, hindrance, impediment, obstacle, **2**. bar (бар); synonyms (n) band, stop, line, pub, snag, barrier, (v) ban, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, foreclose, confine, restrict; *antonyms* (v) permit, allow.
- баритися 1. delay; synonyms (n) pause, arrest, deferment, wait, stay, deferral, extension, (v) defer, check, postpone, reserve, adjourn, break, detain, hesitate; antonyms (n) punctuality, decisiveness, (v) rush, advance, 2. stay; synonyms (v) remain, reside, rest, prop, stop, abide, continue, endure, bide, dwell, support, (n) delay, halt, (adj) cease, inhabit; antonyms (v) leave, change, abscond, depart.
- 6apκac launch; synonyms (n) boat, (v) initiate, begin, dart, found, fire, introduce, toss, commence, establish, hurl, inaugurate, institute, start, cast; antonym (v) end.
- **δαροκο** baroque; *synonyms* (*n*) baroqueness, (*adj*) ornate, elaborate, rococo, outlandish, strange, fancy, quaint, barocco, churrigueresco, churrigueresque, flamboyant, florid, flowery, gaudy; *antonym* (*adj*) plain.
- 6ac bass; synonyms (adj) deep, low, resonant, rich, sonorous, abstruse, booming, rumbling, cryptic, (n) basso, tenor, trout, violoncello, (adv) accompaniment, second
- басейн 1. pool; synonyms (n) plash, lake, pond, mere, cartel, basin, kitty, syndicate, trust, billiards, lough, store, (v) combine, merge, associate, 2. basin; synonyms (n) bowl, pot, depression, dock, hollow, tank, washbasin, washbowl, basinful, cavity, cup, lavatory, pool, sink, washstand, 3. reservoir; synonyms (n) cistern, fountain, well, bank, hoard, reserve, stock, supply, 4. pond; synonyms (n) loch, reservoir, sea, broad.
- **басовий** bass; *synonyms* (*adj*) deep, low, resonant, rich, sonorous, abstruse, booming, rumbling, cryptic, (*n*) basso, tenor, trout, violoncello, (*adv*) accompaniment, second.
- **батарея** battery; *synonyms* (*n*) troop, army, barrage, company, collection, mugging, onslaught, sequence, squad, violence, group, regiment, squadron, ark, battalia.
- **батист** lawn; synonyms (n) grass, grassplot, field, green, park, meadow, grassplat, plot, backyard, esplanade, mead, pasturage, heather, neighborhood, plat.
- **6aTir** Whip; *synonyms* (n) coachman, (v) scourge, lash, flog, strap, beat, flagellate, goad, punish, stir, thrash, trounce, wallop, chastise, cane.
- батьки parents; synonym (n) ancestors.
- **батьківський** parental; *synonyms* (*adj*) maternal, paternal, agnate, agnatic, enate, enatic, affectionate, devoted, tender.
- батьківщина 1. country; synonyms (n) state, nation, home, land, area, commonwealth, kingdom, place, realm, region, soil, territory, (adj) rural, rustic, public; antonyms (n) city, (adj) urban, 2. home; synonyms (n) fireside, abode, domicile, house, base, building, dwelling, family, habitation, household, residence, shelter, asylum, fatherland, (adj) domestic.
- **батько 1**. father; *synonyms* (*n*) begetter, dad, sire, creator, abba, beginner, forefather, founder, padre, patriarch, author, (*v*) beget, engender, create, generate; *antonym* (*n*) mother, **2**. parent; *synonyms* (*n*) origin, source.

- prototype, precursor, (v) father, foster, rear, nurture, advance, advert, arouse, boot, cite, conjure, elevate; *antonym* (n) child.
- **бахрома** fringe; *synonyms* (*n*) brim, brink, edge, boundary, periphery, rim, bound, perimeter, frame, circumference, (*v*) border, hem, skirt, verge, (*adj*) feather.
- **бачення 1**. seeing; *synonyms* (*adj*) considering, conscious, sensitive, (*conj*) syne, (*n*) eyesight, sight, vision, beholding, gaze, sightedness, thought, (*prep*) because, **2**. vision; *synonyms* (*n*) view, dream, daydream, imagination, outlook, specter, ghost, spirit, apparition, fantasy, hallucination, image, phantom, prospect, (*v*) fancy, *antonym* (*n*) reality.
- **бачити 1**. see; *synonyms* (*v*) look, feel, discover, appreciate, behold, consider, deem, discern, distinguish, know, notice, recognize, apprehend, (*adj*) observe, perceive, **2**. view; *synonyms* (*n*) sight, judgment, opinion, scene, idea, outlook, prospect, thought, aspect, notion, position, show, (*v*) regard, see, eye.
- башта tower; synonyms (n) column, castle, pinnacle, monument, (v) soar, ascend, rise, arise, loom, building, edifice, erection, fabric, hulk, (adj) pillar.
- **бджола** bee; *synonyms* (*n*) honeybee, ant, termite, caprice, fancy, freak, humor, mania, mosquito, notion, party, phobia, whim, (*adi*) barbecue, (*v*) fly.
- **6e3** minus; *synonyms* (n) negative, disadvantage, subtraction, (v) bereft, lack, bereaved, denuded, (adj) minor, less, lacking, deficient, lesser, short, (adv) without; *antonym* (prep) plus.
- **безбарвний** bald (лисий); *synonyms* (*adj*) bare, hairless, simple, austere, meager, threadbare, raw, barefaced, dry, forthright, mere, naked, nude, plain, stark; *antonym* (*adj*) hairy.
- **безвинний** innocent; *synonyms* (*adj*) harmless, chaste, artless, clear, ingenuous, innocuous, guileless, guiltless, ignorant, blameless, faultless, gullible, naive, pure, spotless; *antonyms* (*adj*) guilty, culpable, responsible, warv. wicked.
- **безвихідний** hopeless; *synonyms* (*adj*) despairing, despondent, forlorn, incurable, disconsolate, abject, desperate, impossible, useless, dismal, desolate, futile, helpless, inadequate, incompetent; *antonyms* (*adj*) hopeful, cheerful, competent, promising.
- безглуздий 1. absurd; synonyms (adj) foolish, preposterous, ridiculous, unreasonable, irrational, crazy, derisory, illogical, incredible, inept, ludicrous, meaningless, nonsensical, outrageous, senseless; antonym (adj) sensible, 2. meaningless; synonyms (adj) empty, insignificant, futile, hollow, pointless, stupid, useless, worthless, absurd, inane, needless, purposeless, vain, silly; antonym (adj) meaningful, 3. ridiculous; synonyms (adj) funny, laughable, comical, farcical, amusing, comic, droll, inconsistent, grotesque, humorous, daft, extravagant, incongruous, unwise, injudicious; *antonyms* (adj) inspiring, reasonable, **4**. stupid; synonyms (adj) dull, fatuous, idiotic, crass, insane, childish, dim, slow, booby, dense, doltish, (n) simple, dullard, idiot, dolt; antonyms (adj) bright, clever, intelligent, shrewd, wise, 5. pointless; synonyms (adi) flat, aimless, blunt, fruitless, ineffectual, otiose, insipid,

- irrelevant, gratuitous, obtuse, superfluous, unnecessary, commonplace; *antonym* (*adj*) worthwhile.
- **безглуздя** nonsense; *synonyms* (*n*) gibberish, absurdity, balderdash, baloney, drivel, folderol, foolishness, humbug, claptrap, falderal, folly, hooey, jargon, rigmarole, (*v*) stuff; *antonym* (*n*) sense.
- бездіяльний passive; synonyms (adj) inactive, apathetic, inert, submissive, indifferent, lifeless, nonviolent, resigned, dormant, slow, unresisting, impassive, indolent, meek, patient; antonyms (adj) active, assertive, spirited, working.
- бездоганний pure; synonyms (adj) just, absolute, genuine, natural, artless, clean, clear, faultless, fresh, good, guileless, immaculate, innocent, mere, (n) chaste; antonyms (adj) impure, contaminated, diluted, dishonored, tainted, wicked.
- **бездоглядний** derelict; *synonyms* (*adj*) desolate, delinquent, abandoned, deserted, forsaken, neglectful, ramshackle, remiss, negligent, dilapidated, decrepit, rickety, (n) outcast, tramp, vagabond.
- **бездомний** homeless; *synonyms* (*adj*) houseless, roofless, dispossessed, destitute, friendless, itinerant, unhoused, stray, abandoned, broke, (*n*) anus, arse, ass, backside bottom
- **безжалісний** ruthless; *synonyms* (*adj*) merciless, pitiless, inhuman, remorseless, cruel, heartless, ferocious, brutal, grim, harsh, inexorable, relentless, unsparing, barbarous, bitter; *antonyms* (*adj*) merciful, charitable, kind, gentle.
- **беззастережно** implicitly; *synonyms* (*adv*) indirectly, obliquely, virtually, impliedly, subtly, tactfully.
- **беззвучний** dumb; *synonyms* (*adj*) mute, dense, dim, dull, silent, speechless, inarticulate, obtuse, slow, stupid, idiotic, quiet, taciturn, thick, voiceless.
- **безконечний** infinite; *synonyms* (*adj*) absolute, boundless, countless, endless, eternal, immense, incalculable, immeasurable, innumerable, everlasting, enormous, illimitable, indefinite, multitudinous, myriad; *antonyms* (*adj*) finite, limited, restricted.
- безкоштовний free; synonyms (adj) loose, frank, liberal, (v) clear, exempt, liberate, discharge, excuse, extricate, relieve, disentangle, acquit, deliver, disengage, ease; antonyms (adj) bound, restricted, compelled, confined, imprisoned, repressive, secure, strict, stuck, tangled, attached, busy, (v) confine, block, cage.
- 6e3κοштовно free; synonyms (adj) loose, frank, liberal, (ν) clear, exempt, liberate, discharge, excuse, extricate, relieve, disentangle, acquit, deliver, disengage, ease; antonyms (adj) bound, restricted, compelled, confined, imprisoned, repressive, secure, strict, stuck, tangled, attached, busy, (ν) confine, block, cage.
- **безлад** mess; *synonyms* (*n*) clutter, jumble, muddle, confusion, difficulty, disorder, hodgepodge, jam, scrape, bedlam, chaos, dilemma, dirt, (*v*) botch, soil; *antonym* (*n*) order.
- **безладдя 1.** disorder; *synonyms* (n) ailment, complaint, clutter, disease, jumble, muddle, chaos, commotion, confusion, disarrangement, disturbance, (v) derange, disarray, confuse, perturb; *antonyms* (n) orderliness, calm, peace, (v) order, **2.** mess; *synonyms* (n) difficulty, disorder, hodgepodge, jam, scrape, bedlam, dilemma, dirt, mash, mayhem, miscellany, muss, pickle, (v) botch,

- soil, **3**. confusion; *synonyms* (*n*) bewilderment, agitation, distraction, pandemonium, tumult, bustle, huddle, upset, anarchy, complication, embarrassment, flurry, fog, hubbub, litter; *antonym* (*n*) clarity, **4**. upset; *synonyms* (*v*) overturn, agitate, disquiet, overthrow, bother, disturb, reverse, subvert, unsettle, (*adj*) unsettled, hurt, agitated, confused, (*n*) trouble, distress; *antonyms* (*v*) please, encourage, soothe, (*adj*) pleased, confident.
- **безліч 1**. variety; synonyms (n) kind, sort, species, change, form, style, type, variation, breed, diversity, genus, miscellany, nature, (adj) class, (v) difference; antonym (n) uniformity, 2. bag; synonyms (n) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (v) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net, 3. army; synonyms (n) legion, troop, host, battery, battalion, brigade, crowd, flock, force, multitude, service, swarm, war, (adj) military, array, 4. abundance; synonyms (n) wealth, amplitude, exuberance, plenitude, profusion, richness, store, treasure, affluence, breadth, copiousness, enough, fertility, (adj) plenty, riches; antonyms (n) dearth, scarcity, aridity, insufficiency, lack, shortage, 5. host; synonyms (n) army, horde, mob, emcee, mass, throng, heap, bunch, group, innkeeper, landlord, pack, server, beads, cloud, 6. plenty; synonyms (n) abundance, many, much, plenteousness, opulence, galore, flood, lot, plentifulness, plentitude, fullness, (adj) adequate, ample, plentiful, sufficient; antonyms (n) few, (adj) insufficient, 7. mass (maca); synonyms (adj) block, (n) bulk, cluster, pile, collection, lump, magnitude, majority, accumulation, aggregate, amount, assembly, body, bundle, (v) assemble, **8**. ocean (okeah); synonyms (n) sea, deep, brine, waves, puddle, seaway, sink, splash, tide, (adj) oceanic, marine, subaquatic.
- **безлюдний** desert (пустеля); *synonyms* (*n*) wilderness, (*v*) abandon, escape, defect, ditch, forsake, leave, relinquish, abscond, (*adj*) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, worth; *antonyms* (*n*) bog, (*v*) stay.
- **безмежний 1**. infinite; *synonyms* (*adj*) absolute, boundless, countless, endless, eternal, immense, incalculable, immeasurable, innumerable, everlasting, enormous, illimitable, indefinite, multitudinous, myriad; *antonyms* (*adj*) finite, limited, restricted, **2**. unlimited; *synonyms* (*adj*) unbounded, limitless, unconditional, infinite, total, measureless, interminable, unqualified, unrestricted, prodigious, unconfined, unending, unmeasured, vast, broad; *antonym* (*adj*) partial.
- **6e3MoBHICT5** still; *synonyms* (*adv*) however, but, nevertheless, (*adj*) calm, pacify, peaceful, silence, quiescent, serene, silent, (*n*) hush, (*v*) quiet, assuage, compose, lull; *antonyms* (*adj*) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, (*n*) noisy.
- **6e3MoBHO** silently; *synonyms* (*adv*) mutely, noiselessly, quietly, stilly, secretly, faintly, furtively, indistinctly, patiently, peaceably, privately, taciturnly, whistly, wordlessly, cautiously; *antonym* (*adv*) noisily.
- **безнадійний 1.** hopeless; *synonyms* (*adj*) despairing, despondent, forlorn, incurable, disconsolate, abject, desperate, impossible, useless, dismal, desolate, futile, helpless, inadequate, incompetent; *antonyms* (*adj*) hopeful, cheerful, competent, promising, **2.** desperate;

- *synonyms* (*adj*) hopeless, dire, critical, awful, drastic, furious, grave, miserable, rank, reckless, serious, terrible, extreme.
- **безневинний** innocent; *synonyms* (*adj*) harmless, chaste, artless, clear, ingenuous, innocuous, guileless, guiltless, ignorant, blameless, faultless, gullible, naive, pure, spotless; *antonyms* (*adj*) guilty, culpable, responsible, wary, wicked.
- **безодня** depth; *synonyms* (n) abyss, deepness, profoundness, intensity, profundity, abstruseness, wisdom, breadth, extent, height, strength, width, astuteness, draught, extremity.
- 6e3Πeκa 1. safety; synonyms (n) protection, guard, refuge, security, bingle, safe, asylum, sanctuary, cover, preservation, safeness, shelter, condom, defense, prophylactic; antonyms (n) danger, hazard, 2. security; synonyms (n) pledge, safety, hostage, insurance, collateral, secureness, strength, peace, assurance, bail, deposit, ease, gage, (v) bond, (adj) firmness.
- **безперебійність** continuity; *synonyms* (*n*) continuation, coherence, continuance, duration, persistence, concatenation, sequence, perseverance, run, series, chain, constancy, continency, course, flow; *antonym* (*n*) discontinuity.
- **безперервний 1**. continual; *synonyms* (*adj*) constant, ceaseless, incessant, continuous, endless, everlasting, frequent, uninterrupted, eternal, lasting, perennial, permanent, perpetual, persistent, unending; *antonyms* (*adj*) intermittent, sporadic, temporary, **2**. continuous; *synonyms* (*adj*) continual, running, chronic, consecutive, continued, unbroken, unrelenting, abiding, even, flowing, nonstop, progressive, steady, straight, sustained; *antonym* (*adj*) discontinuous.
- **безперервність** continuity; *synonyms* (n) continuation, coherence, continuance, duration, persistence, concatenation, sequence, perseverance, run, series, chain, constancy, continency, course, flow; *antonym* (n) discontinuity.
- **безперервно 1**. continuously; *synonyms* (*adv*) constantly, ceaselessly, continually, endlessly, incessantly, persistently, unceasingly, unremittingly; *antonym* (*adv*) intermittently, **2**. continually; *synonyms* (*adv*) ever, forever, perpetually, continuously, frequently, regularly, eternally, (*adj*) always.
- безперечно 1. doubtless; synonyms (adv) certainly, assuredly, questionless, undoubtedly, presumably, probably, unquestionably, (adj) sure, certes, 2. undoubtedly; synonyms (adv) doubtless, surely, indubitably, positively, clearly, definitely, evidently; antonym (adv) questionably, 3. positively; synonyms (adv) absolutely, necessarily, expressly, decidedly, categorically, favorably, yes, (adj) really; antonyms (adv) disapprovingly, negatively.
- **безпечний 1.** safe; *synonyms* (*adj*) secure, reliable, cautious, dependable, good, harmless, innocuous, sound, correct, innocent, inoffensive, certain, stable, (*n*) closet, coffer; *antonyms* (*adj*) dangerous, unsafe, hurt, risky, unprotected, vulnerable, harmful, insecure, reckless, **2**. secure; *synonyms* (*v*) close, fix, preserve, fasten, acquire, assure, attain, ensure, fast, gain, (*adj*) safe, firm,

- confident, attach, bind; *antonyms* (v) lose, detach, (adj) loose.
- **безпечність 1**. security; *synonyms* (*n*) pledge, protection, safety, hostage, insurance, collateral, guard, secureness, strength, peace, assurance, bail, cover, defense, (*v*) bond; *antonym* (*n*) danger, **2**. safety; *synonyms* (*n*) refuge, security, bingle, safe, asylum, sanctuary, preservation, safeness, shelter, condom, prophylactic, rubber; *antonym* (*n*) hazard.
- **безпечно** safely; *synonyms* (*adv*) securely, sure, certainly, closely, gingerly, powerfully, snugly, steadily, strongly, tightly, soundly.
- **безплатний** free; *synonyms* (*adj*) loose, frank, liberal, (*v*) clear, exempt, liberate, discharge, excuse, extricate, relieve, disentangle, acquit, deliver, disengage, ease; *antonyms* (*adj*) bound, restricted, compelled, confined, imprisoned, repressive, secure, strict, stuck, tangled, attached, busy, (*v*) confine, block, cage.
- **безплатно** free; *synonyms* (*adj*) loose, frank, liberal, (*v*) clear, exempt, liberate, discharge, excuse, extricate, relieve, disentangle, acquit, deliver, disengage, ease; *antonyms* (*adj*) bound, restricted, compelled, confined, imprisoned, repressive, secure, strict, stuck, tangled, attached, busy, (*v*) confine, block, cage.
- **безплідний** hungry (голодний); *synonyms* (*adj*) avid, eager, esurient, famished, greedy, ravenous, starving, desirous, meager, starveling, barren, keen, peckish, (v) craving, (*adv*) empty; *antonyms* (*adj*) full, sated, satiated.
- **безповоротний** definitive; *synonyms* (*adj*) conclusive, decisive, definite, last, authoritative, eventual, final, explicit, categorical, critical, determinate, express, (v) decided, absolute, emphatic.
- **безпомічний** helpless; *synonyms* (*adj*) forlorn, powerless, defenseless, weak, disabled, feeble, hopeless, impotent, unable, incompetent, vulnerable, (*n*) frail, (*v*) destitute, abandoned.
- **безпорадний** helpless; *synonyms* (*adj*) forlorn, powerless, defenseless, weak, disabled, feeble, hopeless, impotent, unable, incompetent, vulnerable, (*n*) frail, (*v*) destitute, abandoned.
- **безпосередній 1**. immediate; *synonyms* (*adj*) close, prompt, direct, sudden, near, present, quick, expeditious, fast, hasty, instant, proximate, speedy, express, adjacent; *antonyms* (*adj*) slow, gradual, consecutive, deliberate, **2**. direct; *synonyms* (*adj*) straight, blunt, immediate, (*v*) aim, channel, conduct, address, charge, control, dictate, head, administer, guide, lead, (*n*) command; *antonyms* (*adj*) indirect, roundabout, circuitous, oblique, secondhand, sideways, unplanned, (*v*) request, **3**. spontaneous; *synonyms* (*adj*) gratuitous, automatic, instinctive, natural, impromptu, improvised, extemporaneous, impetuous, impulsive, offhand, unaffected, involuntary, easy, (*v*) voluntary, free; *antonyms* (*adj*) planned, forced, prearranged, prepared.
- **безпосередньо 1**. directly; *synonyms* (*adv*) immediately, forthwith, instantly, bluntly, direct, frankly, straight, personally, sheer, flat, now, promptly, quickly, slap, (*adj*) forthright; *antonyms* (*adv*) indirectly, obliquely, later, **2**. direct; *synonyms* (*adj*) blunt, immediate, (*v*) aim, channel, conduct, address, charge, control, dictate, head, administer, guide, lead, level, (*n*)

- command; *antonyms* (*adj*) indirect, roundabout, circuitous, oblique, second-hand, sideways, unplanned, (v) request, **3**. immediately (негайно); *synonyms* (*adv*) directly, right, readily, instantaneously, presently, rapidly, incontinently, momentarily, summarily, exactly, outright, soon, speedily, straightaway, (*adj*) instanter; *antonym* (*adv*) slowly.
- **безпрецедентний** unprecedented; *synonyms* (*adj*) unparalleled, singular, unexampled, extraordinary, new, unique, exceptional, remarkable, uncommon, undescribed; *antonyms* (*adj*) precedented, usual.
- **безпритульний** homeless; *synonyms* (*adj*) houseless, roofless, dispossessed, destitute, friendless, itinerant, unhoused, stray, abandoned, broke, (*n*) anus, arse, ass, backside. bottom.
- **безпутний** gay; *synonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, bright, convivial, festive, gaudy, airy, blithe, brave, buoyant, cheery, festal, flashy, frolicsome, (*n*) homosexual, gallant.
- **безрезультатний** ineffective; *synonyms* (*adj*) empty, incompetent, futile, impotent, inadequate, ineffectual, inefficient, null, fruitless, incapable, powerless, unable, useless, worthless, feckless; *antonyms* (*adj*) effective, strong, successful, useful.
- **безробітний** unemployed; *synonyms* (*adj*) idle, vacant, free, inactive, unexercised, (v) unoccupied; *antonyms* (*adj*) employed, working.
- **безробітні** unemployed; *synonyms* (*adj*) idle, vacant, free, inactive, unexercised, (*v*) unoccupied; *antonyms* (*adj*) employed, working.
- **безробіття** unemployment; *synonyms* (n) idleness, depression, leisure, recession, redundancy; *antonym* (n) employment.
- **безсердечність** cruelty; *synonyms* (n) brutality, barbarity, cruelness, oppression, ferociousness, ferocity, harshness, mercilessness, ruthlessness, tyranny, violence, sadism, barbarism, abuse, fierceness; *antonyms* (n) compassion, kindness, friendliness, gentleness.
- **безсилля** weakness; *synonyms* (*n*) debility, defect, failing, fault, deficiency, feebleness, fragility, imperfection, flaw, frailty, inadequacy, blemish, predilection, (*adj*) infirmity, foible; *antonyms* (*n*) strength, power, dislike, advantage, brightness, determination, intensity, supremacy.
- **безсловесний** dumb; *synonyms* (*adj*) mute, dense, dim, dull, silent, speechless, inarticulate, obtuse, slow, stupid, idiotic, quiet, taciturn, thick, voiceless.
- **безсторонній** neutral; *synonyms* (*adj*) disinterested, impartial, indifferent, dispassionate, impersonal, noncommittal, colorless, detached, fair, inert, objective, unbiased, apathetic, independent, (*n*) neuter; *antonyms* (*adj*) biased, aromatic, colorful.
- **безсторонність** equity; *synonyms* (n) fairness, honesty, candor, reasonableness, uprightness, justness, probity, right, righteousness, law, (adj) justice, integrity; *antonym* (n) unfairness.
- **безсумнівний 1**. absolute; *synonyms* (*adj*) downright, peremptory, total, unconditional, categorical, full, real, unqualified, utter, actual, arbitrary, authoritative, certain, complete, (*n*) positive; *antonyms* (*adj*) partial, qualified,

- 2. doubtless; synonyms (adv) certainly, assuredly, questionless, undoubtedly, presumably, probably, unquestionably, (adj) sure, certes, 3. apparent; synonyms (adj) manifest, discernible, patent, plain, clear, definite, evident, obvious, open, ostensible, perceptible, conspicuous, marked, noticeable, (adv) visible; antonyms (adj) unclear, mysterious, obscure, 4. certain; synonyms (adj) absolute, assured, dependable, indisputable, reliable, decisive, fixed, inevitable, infallible, particular, perfect, safe, special, specific, (v) bound; antonyms (adj) uncertain, doubtful, unsure, questionable, 5. positive; synonyms (adj) affirmative, confident, direct, explicit, favorable, incontrovertible, plus, advantageous, constructive, decided, dogmatic, emphatic, assertive, genuine, express; antonyms (adj) negative, derogatory, pessimistic, sad, **6**. obvious; *synonyms* (*adj*) apparent, distinct, flagrant, blatant, glaring, undeniable, unmistakable, gross, indubitable, lucid, overt, palpable, prominent, salient, (v) bright; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, hidden, imperceptible, undetectable, concealed, slight, subtle.
- **безсумнівно 1**. certainly; *synonyms* (*adv*) assuredly, surely, necessarily, definitely, really, sure, truly, inevitably, absolutely, clearly, exactly, indeed, indubitably, positively, (*int*) yes; *antonyms* (*adv*) doubtfully, questionably, **2**. doubtless; *synonyms* (*adv*) certainly, questionably, adj) certes, **3**. surely; *synonyms* (*adv*) confidently, firmly, securely, (*adj*) doubtless.
- **безтурботний 1**. careless; *synonyms* (*adj*) inconsiderate, cursory, forgetful, haphazard, inattentive, insouciant, reckless, hasty, imprudent, inadvertent, incautious, lax, listless, (*v*) heedless, (*adv*) thoughtless; *antonyms* (*adj*) careful, cautious, prudent, attentive, diligent, meticulous, thorough, thoughtful, guarded, methodical, strict, wary, **2**. gay; *synonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, bright, convivial, festive, gaudy, airy, blithe, brave, buoyant, cheery, festal, flashy, frolicsome, (*n*) homosexual, gallant.
- безумний crazy; synonyms (adj) deranged, mad, madcap, wild, absurd, brainsick, cracked, crazed, demented, eccentric, foolish, ludicrous, preposterous, silly, wacky; antonyms (adj) sane, sensible.
- безумовний 1. absolute; synonyms (adj) downright, peremptory, total, unconditional, categorical, full, real, unqualified, utter, actual, arbitrary, authoritative, certain, complete, (n) positive; antonyms (adj) partial, qualified, 2. implicit; synonyms (adj) silent, tacit, understood, undeclared, unsaid, implied, inherent, unquestioning, virtual, practical; antonyms (adj) explicit, direct.
- 6e3yMoBHo 1. absolutely; synonyms (adv) surely, utterly, categorically, completely, dead, decidedly, definitely, entirely, exactly, fully, just, precisely, purely, (int) positively, certainly; antonyms (adv) partially, doubtfully, partly, 2. positively; synonyms (adv) absolutely, necessarily, expressly, clearly, favorably, yes, (adj) really; antonyms (adv) disapprovingly, negatively.
- **безумство** madness; *synonyms* (*n*) frenzy, furor, insanity, lunacy, delirium, folly, idiocy, insaneness,

- aberration, anger, craziness, (*adj*) fury, rage, desperation, furore; *antonyms* (*n*) sanity, sense.
- **безуспішний** unsuccessful; *synonyms* (*adj*) fruitless, futile, unfortunate, unlucky, ineffective, stillborn, unhappy, vain, (*v*) abortive, sterile; *antonym* (*adj*) successful.
- безцільний pointless; synonyms (adj) meaningless, flat, aimless, blunt, futile, needless, purposeless, senseless, worthless, dull, fruitless, inane, ineffectual, otiose, silly; antonyms (adj) meaningful, worthwhile.
- **безшумний** silent; *synonyms* (*adj*) motionless, dumb, mute, tacit, hush, inarticulate, inaudible, incommunicative, mum, noiseless, placid, reserved, reticent, still, (*adv*) quiet; *antonyms* (*adj*) noisy, spoken, loud, talkative, explicit, open.
- **бейсбо**л ball (м'яч); *synonyms* (*n*) bulb, globe, shot, shell, bead, baseball, bullet, dance, football, lump, orb, party, pellet, projectile, sphere.
- **бекон** bacon; *synonyms* (*n*) lard, livelihood, maintenance, middlings, pay, prize, salary, stipend, subsistence, sustenance, wage, enrich, fatten, interlard, middles.
- белетристика fiction; synonyms (n) fabrication, fable, falsehood, invention, lie, story, falsity, figment, novel, romance, sham, deceit, fib, forgery, legend; antonym (n) truth
- **бензин 1**. petrol; *synonyms* (*n*) gasoline, gas, gasolene, petroleum, oil, accelerator, flatulence, flatulency, gun, nitromethane, alcohol, ethanol, gasohol, methanol, naphtha, **2**. gas; *synonyms* (*n*) petrol, air, fumes, vapor, (*v*) fuel, brag, vaunt, blague, blow, bluff, bluster, boast, crow.
- **бенкет** feast; *synonyms* (n) banquet, dinner, entertainment, binge, carousal, celebration, festival, meal, spread, (v) junket, fete, eat, feed, treat, entertain; *antonym* (v) fast.
- **бенкетувати** feast; *synonyms* (*n*) banquet, dinner, entertainment, binge, carousal, celebration, festival, meal, spread, (*v*) junket, fete, eat, feed, treat, entertain; *antonym* (*v*) fast.
- 6eper 1. shore; synonyms (n) bank, coast, prop, beach, edge, land, buttress, seashore, seaside, stay, brace, margin, border, riverside, (v) support; antonym (n) interior, 2. bank (δαΗΚ); synonyms (n) dam, slope, store, limit, stack, bluff, heap, hill, stock, (v) embankment, gradient, deposit, mound, rely, acclivity; antonym (v) withdraw, 3. coast; synonyms (n) shore, sand, seacoast, shoreline, (v) glide, slide, drift, cruise, 4. strand; synonyms (n) rope, chain, filament, line, string, thread, wisp, yarn, fibril, scar, (v) maroon, desert, abandon
- **береговий** coastal; *synonyms* (*adj*) continental, earthy, marine, midland, marginal, marshy, riverine, skirting; *antonym* (*adj*) inland.
- берегти 1. guard; synonyms (n) defend, defense, bulwark, care, cover, escort, protection, watchman, custody, convoy, defence, fender, guardsman, (v) shield, keep, 2. keep (тримати); synonyms (v) hold, preserve, retain, continue, guard, have, maintain, celebrate, confine, conserve, observe, reserve, save, commemorate, check; antonyms (v) dump, lose, 3. save; synonyms (v)

- deliver, economize, rescue, free, hoard, liberate, protect, redeem, accumulate, amass, economise, husband, (*prep*) except, but, excepting; *antonyms* (v) spend, squander, waste.
- **березень** march; *synonyms* (*n*) walk, hike, parade, demonstration, ramble, trek, course, (*v*) journey, tramp, advance, border, pace, process, stride, stroll.
- 6eper cap; synonyms (n) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (ν) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.
- **беркут** eagle (opeπ); *synonyms* (n) colors, labarum, oriflamb, oriflamme, aviator, flag, pilot, streamer, (*adj*) antelope, chickaree, chipmunk, courser, doe, gazelle, grevhound.
- **бесіда** conversation; *synonyms* (n) chat, conference, talk, colloquy, communication, discourse, discussion, language, speech, talking, palaver, debate, chitchat, converse, dialogue.
- **бески**д cliff; *synonyms* (*n*) bluff, precipice, hill, mountain, promontory, (*adj*) wall.
- **бетон** concrete; *synonyms* (*adj*) actual, positive, physical, real, tangible, fixed, palpable, definite, firm, material, (*n*) cement, (*v*) coagulate, congeal, concretion, set; *antonyms* (*adj*) theoretical, intangible, abstract, hypothetical, incidental.
- **бетонний** concrete; *synonyms* (*adj*) actual, positive, physical, real, tangible, fixed, palpable, definite, firm, material, (*n*) cement, (*v*) coagulate, congeal, concretion, set; *antonyms* (*adj*) theoretical, intangible, abstract, hypothetical, incidental.
- **бидло 1.** cow (корова); *synonyms* (v) bully, intimidate, awe, browbeat, daunt, terrorize, discourage, frighten, overawe, threaten, abash, **2.** cattle (худоба); *synonyms* (n) beast, cows, stock, kine, livestock, oxen, sheep, antelopes, bison, camels, crowd, mob, public, barb, bidet.
- 6μκ 1. bull; synonyms (n) bullshit, bunk, hogwash, rot, absurdity, bear, buck, buncombe, bunkum, cop, copper, crap, fuzz, guff, (adj) blunder, 2. neat; synonyms (adj) adroit, elegant, clear, natty, tidy, graceful, dainty, clean, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, methodical, nifty, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered.
- **бинт** band; *synonyms* (*n*) cluster, party, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, (*v*) ring, combine.
- бистрий 1. rapid; synonyms (adj) fast, quick, prompt, swift, agile, fleet, hasty, speedy, cursory, expeditious, sudden, nimble, winged, express, hurried; antonyms (adj) slow, gradual, 2. quick (швидкий); synonyms (adj) bright, active, clever, intelligent, alert, alive, dexterous, immediate, instant, keen, lively, brief, abrupt, acute, animated; antonyms (adj) leisurely, dull.
- **бистрота** velocity; *synonyms* (n) speed, celerity, rapidity, swiftness, quickness, tempo, fleetness, haste, fastness, dispatch, agility, (v) pace, rate, cadence, carriage; *antonym* (n) slowness.
- **битва 1**. battle; *synonyms* (n) combat, contest, struggle, clash, conflict, war, action, fighting, fray, scuffle, (v) fight, brawl, encounter, quarrel, scrap, **2**. combat; *synonyms* (n) hostility, affray, contention, engagement,

- feud, skirmish, (v) battle, oppose, resist, wrestle, tilt, attack, contend, engage, grapple.
- **6HTH 1.** beat; *synonyms* (*v*) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (*n*) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; *antonym* (*v*) lose, **2.** hit; *synonyms* (*v*) strike, attain, belt, blow, bump, collide, encounter, (*n*) bang, smash, touch, chance, bash, beat, collision, play; *antonyms* (*n*) failure, flop, **3.** strike; *synonyms* (*n*) assault, clap, rap, tap, (*v*) hit, impress, slap, move, affect, box, buffet, clout, coin, mint, whack, **4.** pound; *synonyms* (*n*) cage, fold, (*v*) pen, crush, grind, hammer, maul, palpitate, mash, grate, bruise, ram, thrash, bray, drive.
- **6HTHC9 1.** fight; *synonyms* (*v*) combat, contest, quarrel, feud, argue, bicker, campaign, clash, contend, (*n*) battle, dispute, engagement, conflict, contention, (*adj*) brawl; *antonyms* (*v*) agree, retreat, withdrawal, **2.** beat; *synonyms* (*v*) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (*n*) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; *antonym* (*v*) lose, **3.** pulse; *synonyms* (*n*) beat, impulse, pulsation, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, pounding, measure, pulsing, vibration, (*v*) palpitate, pound, vibrate, wave, quiver.
- **6HTTH 1.** beat; *synonyms* (ν) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (n) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; *antonym* (ν) lose, **2**. beating; *synonyms* (n) reverse, beat, defeat, thrashing, whipping, battery, battering, debacle, drubbing, hammering, pounding, pulsation, rout, throbbing, (*adj*) pulsing; *antonym* (n) victory, **3**. pulse; *synonyms* (n) impulse, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, measure, vibration, tempo, (ν) palpitate, pound, vibrate, wave, quiver.
- **бич** cancer; *synonyms* (n) canker, tumor, growth, blight, corruption, curse, evil, disease, mormal, plague, poison, gangrene, (adj) leukemia, sting, thorn.
- **бичачий** bull (бик); *synonyms* (*n*) bullshit, bunk, hogwash, rot, absurdity, bear, buck, buncombe, bunkum, cop, copper, crap, fuzz, guff, (*adi*) blunder.
- **бичувати** whip; *synonyms* (*n*) coachman, (*v*) scourge, lash, flog, strap, beat, flagellate, goad, punish, stir, thrash, trounce, wallop, chastise, cane.
- 6i6 pulse; synonyms (n) beat, impulse, pulsation, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, pounding, cadence, measure, pulsing, (v) pulsate, throb, palpitate, pound, vibrate.
- **біблійний** biblical; *synonyms* (*adj*) scriptural, prophetic, sacred.
- **δίδ.πίοτεκα** library; *synonyms* (*n*) bibliotheca, annals, archive, bibliotheke, den, documentation, documents, records, store.
- **бібліотекар** librarian; *synonyms* (n) bibliothec, bibliothecary.
- **біблія** bible; *synonyms* (*n*) scripture, book, authority, guide, manual, regulation, word, countersign, creed, discussion, doctrine, guidebook, intelligence, logos, news.
- 6ir run; synonyms (v) flow, rule, dash, gush, race, career, conduct, direct, function, go, (n) pass, campaign, course, drive, (adj) stream.
- бігати run; synonyms (v) flow, rule, dash, gush, race, career, conduct, direct, function, go, (n) pass, campaign, course, drive, (adi) stream.

- **бігти** run; *synonyms* (*v*) flow, rule, dash, gush, race, career, conduct, direct, function, go, (*n*) pass, campaign, course, drive, (*adj*) stream.
- **бігун** runner; *synonyms* (*n*) courier, contrabandist, messenger, offset, sprinter, offshoot, contestant, smuggler, stolon, candidate, carpet, flume, ingate, mooncurser.
- 6iaa 1. evil; synonyms (adj) bad, corrupt, criminal, ill, wicked, depraved, destructive, harmful, malign, (n) damage, adversity, detriment, disaster, depravity, malice; antonyms (adj) kindhearted, (n) good, goodness, righteousness, 2. trouble; synonyms (n) distress, bother, pain, anxiety, difficulty, (v) inconvenience, annoy, disorder, disquiet, worry, afflict, agitate, burden, distract, disturb; antonyms (v) calm, please.
- бідний 1. poor; synonyms (adj) bad, low, miserable, paltry, deplorable, destitute, evil, inadequate, insufficient, needy, pathetic, penniless, piteous, (v) meager, (n) mean; antonyms (adj) rich, wealthy, excellent, first-rate, privileged, well-off, admirable, good, 2. lean; synonyms (adj) emaciated, gaunt, thin, bony, lank, lanky, (v) incline, bend, list, slant, bow, careen, pitch, (n) tilt, inclination; antonyms (adj) fat, plump.
- БІДНІСТЬ 1. poverty; synonyms (n) lack, distress, indigence, want, deprivation, impoverishment, pauperism, squalor, necessity, neediness, poorness, (v) destitution, need, penury, deficiency; antonyms (n) wealth, riches, 2. misery; synonyms (n) adversity, affliction, agony, anguish, woe, hardship, evil, ill, infelicity, poverty, suffering, calamity, depression, desolation, (adj) grief; antonyms (n) cheerfulness, ecstasy, happiness, joy, fun, hopefulness, 3. necessity; synonyms (n) demand, essential, exigency, compulsion, emergency, constraint, must, necessary, obligation, requirement, occasion, needfulness, pinch, pressure, (v) use; antonym (n) option, 4. need; synonyms (v) claim, require, involve, exact, have, take, crave, ask, necessitate, (n) desire, absence, beggary, motive, dearth, privation.
- бідно poorly; synonyms (adv) badly, bad, inadequately, miserably, imperfectly, insufficiently, meanly, (adj) ill, ailing, sickly, unhealthy, low, (v) indisposed, sick, unwell; antonyms (adv) well, opulently, satisfactorily.
- **бідон** can; *synonyms* (*v*) tin, dismiss, fire, might, pickle, pot, sack, (*n*) bathroom, behind, buttocks, container, lavatory, posterior, rump, jar; *antonym* (*v*) hire.
- 6igybath 1. Want; synonyms (v) need, desire, (n) lack, poverty, wish, deficiency, deprivation, famine, absence, dearth, demand, destitution, indigence, necessity, penury; antonyms (v) dislike, hate, 2. need; synonyms (v) claim, require, involve, exact, have, take, crave, (n) want, must, requirement, beggary, distress, exigency, motive, hardship; antonym (n) wealth.
- **біженець** refugee; *synonyms* (n) fugitive, emigrant, exile, migrant, expatriate, outcast.
- 6i3Hec business; synonyms (n) employment, matter, subject, affair, calling, concern, corporation, deal, event, job, occupation, profession, trade, vocation, work; antonyms (adj) charitable, housing.

- **бізнесмен** businessman; *synonyms* (n) entrepreneur, dealer, merchant, magnate, tycoon, executive, employer, manufacturer, vendor, broker, businessperson, capitalist, financier, seller.
- 6iй 1. combat; synonyms (n) fight, encounter, action, brawl, conflict, contest, fighting, fray, war, hostility, affray, contention, engagement, (v) battle, clash, 2. battle (битва); synonyms (n) combat, struggle, scuffle, warfare, feud, row, strife, tussle, bout, (v) quarrel, scrap, wrestle, contend, dispute, grapple, 3. action; synonyms (n) act, accomplishment, activity, agency, deed, effect, movement, performance, play, behavior, case, lawsuit, measure, move, (v) achievement; antonyms (n) inaction, inactivity, 4. fight; synonyms (v) argue, bicker, campaign, compete, box, crusade, drive, defend, brush, disagree, (n) squabble, competition, confrontation, altercation, argument; antonyms (v) agree, retreat, withdrawal.
- 6ik 1. side; synonyms (n) edge, rim, faction, border, brink, direction, face, part, hand, aspect, facet, margin, page, position, (v) party; antonym (adj) distant, 2. hip; synonyms (n) haunch, coxa, loin, pelvis, (adj) hep, stylish, chic, in, popular, 3. aspect; synonyms (n) appearance, look, surface, bearing, expression, manner, prospect, side, view, air, angle, feature, quality, respect, (v) regard, 4. part; synonyms (n) constituent, piece, article, character, component, cut, division, portion, section, share, (v) branch, break, disjoin, divide, divorce; antonyms (n) whole, entirety, (adj) complete.
- **6iлet** ticket; *synonyms* (n) pass, card, label, certificate, ballot, check, slate, tag, warrant, mark, slip, voucher, plank, platform, (v) fine.
- білизна 1. clothes; synonyms (n) apparel, attire, clothing, dress, garb, garment, wardrobe, thing, gown, toggery, vesture, wear, 2. white (білий); synonyms (adj) fair, ashen, blank, clean, snowy, wan, achromatic, bloodless, livid, pallid, colorless, bright, good, (n) pale, (v) whiten; antonyms (adj) dark, rosy, (n) black, 3. washing; synonyms (n) laundry, wash, laundering, lavation, cleaning, purification, airstream, backwash, bucking, race, slipstream, washables, (adj) cleansing, clysmic, 4. laundry; synonyms (n) washhouse, washing, dairy, (v) lavatory.
- білий white; synonyms (adj) fair, ashen, blank, clean, snowy, wan, achromatic, bloodless, livid, pallid, colorless, bright, good, (n) pale, (v) whiten; antonyms (adj) dark, rosy, (n) black.
- **білль** bill; synonyms (n) account, beak, advertisement, card, invoice, poster, receipt, act, banknote, check, measure, (v) placard, advertise, charge, list.
- біль 1. pain; synonyms (n) distress, ache, bother, ill, torment, agony, nuisance, harass, annoyance, (v) hurt, afflict, anguish, grieve, trouble, agonize; antonym (n) pleasure, 2. anguish; synonyms (n) torture, misery, affliction, desolation, despair, grief, pang, sadness, sorrow, suffering, bitterness, dolor, wretchedness, (v) pain, fret; antonym (n) joy.
- більш more; synonyms (adv) also, further, besides, beyond, over, (adj) additional, better, extra, larger, exceed, greater, other, (pron) another, (prep) above; antonyms (adv) fewer, less. (adj) inferior.

- **більше 1**. better; *synonyms* (*adj*) superior, (*n*) bettor, (*v*) amend, improve, best, mend, recover, advance, ameliorate, emend, reform, enhance, exceed, excel, refine; *antonyms* (*adj*) lesser, (*adv*) worse, (*n*) inferior, (*v*) worsen, **2**. more; *synonyms* (*adv*) also, further, besides, beyond, over, (*adj*) additional, better, extra, larger, greater, other, (*pron*) another, (*prep*) above; *antonyms* (*adv*) fewer, less, **3**. upwards; *synonyms* (*adv*) upward, up, upwardly, (*adj*) improving, open.
- більший 1. more; synonyms (adv) also, further, besides, beyond, over, (adj) additional, better, extra, larger, exceed, greater, other, (pron) another, (prep) above; antonyms (adv) fewer, less, (adj) inferior, 2. major; synonyms (adj) chief, key, large, main, superior, considerable, master, grave, fundamental, great, higher, important, leading, overriding, principal; antonyms (adj) minor, unimportant, lesser, petty, slight.
- більшість majority; synonyms (n) bulk, age, plurality, body, mass, maturity, preponderance, adolescence; antonym (n) minority.
- 6iππ 1. by; synonyms (prep) beside, at, of, about, on, per, (adv) aside, away, past, through, apart, along, beyond, (adv, prep) alongside, (adj) over, 2. near; synonyms (prep) by, around, (adv) close, almost, towards, (adj) adjoining, adjacent, contiguous, imminent, impending, narrow, coming, (v) familiar, approximate, approach; antonym (adj) distant, 3. at; synonyms (prep) in, a, (n) astatine, (prf) all, completely, wholly, (adj) entertainment, levee, party, reception, conversazione, home, soiree, 4. around; synonyms (adv) approximately, round, roughly, nearly, some, somewhere, (prep) encompassing, encircling, circa, surrounding, (adj) near, nearby, throughout, (n) vicinity.
- білявий 1. blonde; synonyms (adj) blond, fair, golden, (n) towheaded, buff, girl, albino, auricomous, bleached, champagne, leucous, light, pale, platinum, sallow; antonym (n) brunet, 2. fair; synonyms (adj) equitable, clear, beautiful, average, dispassionate, fine, impartial, reasonable, sweet, candid, (adv) clean, (n) bazaar, blonde, carnival, (v) bright; antonyms (adj) unfair, biased, dark, exceptional, unjust, partial, foul, imbalanced, mismatched, prejudiced, unwarranted.
- біноклі binoculars; *synonyms* (n) binocular, spyglass. бінокль binoculars; *synonyms* (n) binocular, spyglass. біографія biography; *synonyms* (n) autobiography, history, life, memoirs, memoir, story, animation.
- **біологічний** biological; *synonyms* (*adj*) biologic, organic, environmental, natal, natural, physical, true, actual, birth, ecological, genetic, geographical, geological, real.
- біологія biology; *synonyms* (n) physiology, anatomy, biota.
- **δίρжα** exchange; *synonyms* (*n*) commutation, swap, switch, commerce, conversion, substitute, (*v*) change, barter, interchange, commute, counterchange, alternate, alter, cash, convert.
- **біржовий** stock; *synonyms* (*n*) breed, lineage, store, goods, ancestry, descent, family, hoard, origin, race, backlog, birth, (*adj*) regular, (*v*) handle, supply.

- біржовик dealer; synonyms (n) merchant, trader, monger, seller, vendor, marketer, agent, broker, salesperson, trafficker, bargainer; antonym (n) user.
- **6ic** devil; *synonyms* (n) demon, fiend, ghost, daemon, deuce, monster, imp, rogue, (v) rag, torment, harass, bedevil, crucify, annoy, bother.
- **бісквіт** biscuit; *synonyms* (n) cookie, cooky, beige, head, tan, slug, spray, (*adj*) glamorous.
- 6ir bit; synonyms (n) crumb, morsel, piece, atom, drop, fleck, fragment, moment, part, portion, shred, snatch, (v) curb, scrap, scantling.
- **бічний** side; *synonyms* (n) edge, rim, faction, border, brink, direction, face, part, hand, aspect, facet, margin, page, position, (v) party; *antonym* (adj) distant.
- благати 1. beg; synonyms (v) adjure, ask, appeal, entreat, implore, cadge, crave, desire, importune, plead, pray, request, require, solicit, supplicate, 2. pray; synonyms (v) beg, beseech, invite, invoke, petition, bid, sue, (adv) please, do, 3. appeal; synonyms (n) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, magnetism, prayer, recourse, temptation, allurement, (v) charm, attract, interest; antonyms (n) unpleasantness, (v) repel.
- 6.Πατο good; synonyms (adj) able, benefit, delicious, right, efficient, capable, excellent, fine, nice, superior, well, advantageous, (n) benign, advantage, gain; antonyms (adj) disobedient, poor, wicked, unpleasant, (n) evil, bad.
- **благовіст** toll; *synonyms* (*n*) duty, fee, price, tax, cost, charge, due, excise, impost, levy, tariff, assessment, (*v*) ring, chime, peal.
- **благовістити** toll; *synonyms* (*n*) duty, fee, price, tax, cost, charge, due, excise, impost, levy, tariff, assessment, (*v*) ring, chime, peal.
- **благодатний** grateful; *synonyms* (*adj*) thankful, agreeable, appreciative, beholden, indebted, obliged, pleasing, (*n*) welcome; *antonym* (*adj*) ungrateful.
- **благодійність** charity; *synonyms* (n) bounty, dole, favor, aid, generosity, kindness, liberality, mercy, virtue, clemency, compassion, gift, pity, (v) almsgiving, (adj) benignity; *antonyms* (n) miserliness, intolerance.
- **благополучний** safe; *synonyms* (*adj*) secure, reliable, cautious, dependable, good, harmless, innocuous, sound, correct, innocent, inoffensive, certain, stable, (*n*) closet, coffer; *antonyms* (*adj*) dangerous, unsafe, hurt, risky, unprotected, vulnerable, harmful, insecure, reckless.
- **благополучно** safely; *synonyms* (*adv*) securely, sure, certainly, closely, gingerly, powerfully, snugly, steadily, strongly, tightly, soundly.
- **благополуччя** welfare; *synonyms* (*n*) prosperity, benefit, good, happiness, health, advantage, sake, interest, wellbeing, upbeat, (*adv*) weal.
- благородний 1. noble; synonyms (adj) dignified, imposing, magnificent, glorious, distinguished, elevated, exalted, generous, high, impressive, majestic, patrician, (n) grand, excellent, (v) great; antonyms (adj) lowerclass, selfish, shameful, humble, dishonorable, lowly, 2. generous; synonyms (adj) ample, full, abundant, benevolent, copious, bountiful, charitable, fair, flush, kind, liberal, spacious, rich, benign, (n) free; antonyms

- (adj) stingy, meager, mean, measly, miserly, small, tightfisted, avaricious, greedy, ungenerous.
- **благородно** greatly; *synonyms* (*adv*) badly, considerably, exceedingly, too, awfully, enormously, exceptionally, extremely, very, well, dearly, abundantly, (*adj*) far, deeply, much; *antonym* (*adv*) slightly.
- **благородство 1.** honour; *synonyms* (*n*) award, accolade, innocence, awarding, (*v*) esteem, honor, respect, celebrate, observe, reward, comply, detect, discover, find, follow; *antonym* (*v*) dishonor, **2**. nobility; *synonyms* (*n*) aristocracy, greatness, dignity, magnanimousness, noblesse, gentry, magnificence, goodness, rank, birth, elite, gallantry, (*adj*) grandeur, generosity, magnanimity; *antonym* (*n*) pettiness.
- **благословення** blessing; *synonyms* (*n*) benediction, approval, mercy, benefit, benison, felicity, luck, advantage, boon, godsend, grace, fluke, consecration, support, windfall; *antonyms* (*n*) curse, disapproval.
- **блакитний** blue (синій); *synonyms* (*adj*) azure, depressed, down, gloomy, low, cheerless, dejected, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, naughty, sad, sapphire, spicy, black.
- 6ланк 1. blank; synonyms (adj) bare, empty, unfilled, clean, vacant, deadpan, dull, expressionless, impassive, inexpressive, (n) space, form, emptiness, gap, hiatus; antonyms (adj) animated, full, expressive, 2. form; synonyms (n) figure, design, arrange, ceremony, shape, class, conformation, (v) cast, make, fashion, build, constitute, establish, carve, construct.
- **блешня** spoon; *synonyms* (*n*) ladle, spoonful, shovel, trowel, (*v*) scoop, smooch, dip, snog.
- **близнюк** twin; *synonyms* (*adj*) dual, matching, identical, similar, (*n*) match, counterpart, mate, pair, fellow, parallel, (*v*) double, duplicate, equal, couple, geminate.
- **близнята** twin; *synonyms* (*adj*) dual, matching, identical, similar, (*n*) match, counterpart, mate, pair, fellow, parallel, (*v*) double, duplicate, equal, couple, geminate.
- 6лизький 1. near; synonyms (prep) about, by, around, (adv) close, almost, towards, (adj) adjoining, adjacent, contiguous, imminent, impending, narrow, (v) familiar, approximate, approach; antonym (adj) distant, 2. intimate; synonyms (adj) confidential, informal, inner, internal, bosom, friendly, (v) express, allude, hint, imply, indicate, insinuate, suggest, (adv) dear, (n) confidante, 3. close; synonyms (adj) near, nearby, accurate, tight, brief, airless, (v) compact, stop, conclude, bar, block, (n) end, finish, conclusion, expiration; antonyms (adj) airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open, start.
- **близькість 1.** proximity; *synonyms* (*n*) nearness, neighborhood, propinquity, vicinity, contiguity, presence, closeness, contact; *antonym* (*n*) distance, **2**. neighbourhood; *synonym* (*n*) locality.
- близько 1. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, (v) compact, stop, conclude, (adv) by, about, (n) end, finish, conclusion; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open, start, 2. closely; synonyms (adv) tightly, close, narrowly, nearly, intimately, strictly, thickly, almost, accurately, attentively, carefully, exactly, intently, precisely; antonyms (adv) distantly, loosely, 3. near; synonyms (prep) around, (adv) towards, approximately,

- (adj) adjoining, contiguous, imminent, impending, coming, closer, handy, stingy, mean, (v) familiar, approach, intimate, **4**. nearly; synonyms (adv) closely, virtually, nigh, practically, roughly, much, just, dear, halfway, (adj) most, thereabouts, approaching.
- **блиск 1**. blaze; *synonyms* (*n*) glare, flame, burning, fire, light, hell, scintillation, combustion, (*v*) flash, beam, flicker, mark, shimmer, (*adj*) burn, glow, **2**. glance; *synonyms* (*n*) look, gaze, glimpse, glitter, looking, (*v*) peek, bounce, glint, peep, ricochet, allude, brush, burnish, gleam, hint; *antonym* (*v*) study.
- **блискавка 1.** lightning; *synonyms* (*n*) bolt, levin, bolter, dart, fetter, enlightenment, quarrel, shackle, (*v*) lightening, luminary, (*adj*) wind, **2.** bolt; *synonyms* (*n*) arrow, dash, pin, catch, (*v*) bar, abscond, gobble, latch, lock, escape, decamp, devour, fasten, gulp, (*adv*) bang; *antonyms* (*v*) nibble, unbolt, unlock.
- блискучий 1. brilliant; synonyms (adj) bright, splendid, glorious, illustrious, intelligent, luminous, magnificent, spectacular, sunny, vivid, brainy, diamond, gaudy, gifted, (v) smart; antonyms (adj) dull, dim, awful, dark,
  2. glossy; synonyms (adj) shiny, sleek, smooth, brilliant, glazed, flat, burnished, glassy, glistening, lustrous, resplendent, satiny, slick, silky, even; antonym (adj) rough,
  3. splendid; synonyms (adj) fine, gorgeous, beautiful, grand, noble, royal, gallant, proud, admirable, good, impressive, luxurious, majestic, shining, (n) excellent; antonym (adj) poor,
  4. shining; synonyms (v) shine, (adj) glossy, radiant, clear, effulgent, glittering, glowing, sheeny, beaming, dazzling, distinguished, gleaming, shimmering, (n) lucid, polishing,
  5. shiny; synonyms (adj) silken, (v) nitid, splendent.
- блідий 1. pale; synonyms (adj) ghastly, faint, wan, dull, light, pallid, weak, watery, cadaverous, (v) dim, blanch, (n) boundary, confine, border, bound; antonyms (adj) dark, rosy, strong, brown, 2. wan; synonyms (v) pale, rueful, (adj) sickly, haggard, ashen, colorless, pasty, sallow, bloodless, lurid, ashy, thin, white, deathly.
- бліднути pale; *synonyms* (*adj*) ghastly, faint, wan, dull, light, pallid, weak, watery, cadaverous, (*v*) dim, blanch, (*n*) boundary, confine, border, bound; *antonyms* (*adj*) dark, rosy, strong, brown.
- 6.70 κ 1. block; synonyms (n) bar, barricade, pad, clog, cluster, (v) arrest, stop, hinder, encumber, halt, lock, obstruct, parry, plug, (adj) lump; antonyms (v) free, unblock, open, 2. unit; synonyms (n) troop, element, group, squad, aggregate, cell, team, detachment, member, ace, company, component, part, section, (adj) one.
- блокнот 1. notebook; synonyms (n) book, laptop, pad, album, computer, file, machine, mainframe, processor, supercomputer, workstation, block, notepaper, 2. pad; synonyms (n) cushion, apartment, digs, wadding, (v) line, inflate, expand, bolster, stuff, wad, aggrandize, amplify, embroider, magnify, enlarge.
- блокувати block; *synonyms* (n) bar, barricade, pad, clog, cluster, (v) arrest, stop, hinder, encumber, halt, lock, obstruct, parry, plug, (adj) lump; antonyms (v) free, unblock, open.

- **блукач** rover; *synonyms* (*n*) nomad, wanderer, rambler, ranger, roamer, traveler, vagabond, vagrant, itinerant, peregrinator.
- **блукаючий** wandering; *synonyms* (v) unsettled, (adj) itinerant, nomadic, stray, erratic, rambling, vagrant, errant, vagabond, migratory, lost, roaming, (n) roving, peregrination, travel.
- **блюдо** dish; *synonyms* (*n*) bowl, beauty, disk, plate, platter, saucer, container, dishful, bag, (*v*) hollow, serve.
- **блюз** blues; *synonyms* (*n*) depression, doldrums, melancholy, gloom, distress, sorrow, bleachers, dismay, ennui, megrims, misery, (*adj*) melancholia, lachrymals, mumps, dismals.
- **бляшанка 1**. can; *synonyms* (*v*) tin, dismiss, fire, might, pickle, pot, sack, (*n*) bathroom, behind, buttocks, container, lavatory, posterior, rump, jar; *antonym* (*v*) hire, **2**. tin (Олово); *synonyms* (*n*) can, canister, rhino, dust, blunt, cannister, mopus, mould, (*v*) preserve, cure, bottle, embalm, kyanize, rear, salt.
- 60 for; synonyms (prep) because, behind, by, per, during, on, toward, (conj) considering, since, (adv) against, as, therefore, hence.
- **60 ΓΟC. ΤΟΒ** divine; *synonyms* (*adj*) beautiful, sacred, wonderful, almighty, blessed, holy, exquisite, splendid, hallowed, celestial, (*v*) anticipate, augur, conjecture, guess, (*n*) clergyman.
- **богохульство** oath; *synonyms* (*n*) curse, expletive, malediction, affidavit, cuss, pledge, promise, swearing, assurance, adjuration, asseveration, blasphemy, agreement, sacrament, swearword.
- **боєприпаси** ammunition; *synonyms* (*n*) ammo, munition, shot, bullet, armament, missile, bullets, explosive, fuel, narcotic, ball, bombs, buckshot, cannonball, chemical.
- **60εμь** fighter; *synonyms* (n) combatant, battler, belligerent, champion, soldier, warrior, militant, activist, crusader.
- **божевілля** madness; *synonyms* (*n*) frenzy, furor, insanity, lunacy, delirium, folly, idiocy, insaneness, aberration, anger, craziness, (*adj*) fury, rage, desperation, furore; *antonyms* (*n*) sanity, sense.
- **божевільний 1.** crazy; *synonyms* (*adj*) deranged, mad, madcap, wild, absurd, brainsick, cracked, crazed, demented, eccentric, foolish, ludicrous, preposterous, silly, wacky; *antonyms* (*adj*) sane, sensible, **2.** mad; *synonyms* (*adj*) frantic, frenzied, insane, delirious, angry, crazy, distracted, frenetic, lunatic, irate, maniac, distraught, cross, (*n*) furious, anger; *antonym* (*adj*) calm, **3.** daft; *synonyms* (*adj*) bonkers, nutty, balmy, inane, barmy, batty, dotty, haywire, idiotic, insensate, kookie, kooky, loco, loony, nuts.
- **божественний** divine; *synonyms* (*adj*) beautiful, sacred, wonderful, almighty, blessed, holy, exquisite, splendid, hallowed, celestial, (*v*) anticipate, augur, conjecture, guess, (*n*) clergyman.
- **божіння** oath; *synonyms* (*n*) curse, expletive, malediction, affidavit, cuss, pledge, promise, swearing, assurance, adjuration, asseveration, blasphemy, agreement, sacrament, swearword.

- **бойлер** boiler; *synonyms* (*n*) kettle, furnace, heater, banality, evaporator, seether, cistern, container, kettleful, kiln, oven, reservoir, timpani, tympani, tympanum.
- **δοκοм** sideways; *synonyms* (*adv*) obliquely, laterally, sidelong, sideway, sidewise, (*adj*) oblique, side, crabwise, crosswise, aslant, indirect, slanting; *antonyms* (*adj*) direct, level.
- 60κc 1. boxing; synonyms (n) pugilism, fisticuffs, packing, sparring, backpacking, fisticuff, handyfight, parcelling, fistfight, slugfest, wadding, (adj) fighting, 2. box; synonyms (n) basket, cage, chest, package, booth, blow, carton, case, container, crate, envelope, (ν) cuff, buffet, beat, fight; antonym (ν) unbox.
- болванка bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow.
- болісний 1. bitter; synonyms (adj) acrimonious, biting, acrid, sharp, acerbic, acid, caustic, keen, malicious, resentful, sour, virulent, acerb, cutting, (n) acerbity; antonyms (adj) mild, sweet, charitable, hot, kind, sugary, 2. cruel; synonyms (adj) barbarous, brutal, hard, harsh, heartless, unkind, bitter, bloody, atrocious, fierce, inhuman, merciless, ruthless, savage, severe; antonyms (adj) gentle, merciful, humane, liberal, sympathetic, 3. painful; synonyms (adj) difficult, sore, afflictive, bad, grievous, harrowing, aching, arduous, dolorous, excruciating, irritating, laborious, poignant, unpleasant, (v) distressing; antonyms (adj) painless, content.
- **боліти 1**. hurt; *synonyms* (v) pain, wound, afflict, injure, ail, cost, (adj) evil, (n) harm, damage, detriment, ache, disadvantage, abuse, distress, lesion; *antonyms* (v) encourage, (adj) uninjured, unhurt, **2**. pain (біль); *synonyms* (n) bother, ill, torment, agony, nuisance, harass, annoyance, discomfort, dolor, grief, (v) hurt, anguish, grieve, trouble, agonize; *antonym* (n) pleasure, **3**. smart; *synonyms* (adj) bright, crafty, dapper, quick, shrewd, sly, prompt, astute, chic, clever, intelligent, jaunty, lively, natty, (n) sharp; *antonyms* (adj) scruffy, stupid, dim, shabby, unkempt, slow.
- **болото 1**. marsh; *synonyms* (*n*) bog, fen, quagmire, marish, morass, swamp, marshland, mire, swampland, wash, **2**. wash; *synonyms* (*v*) rinse, paint, bathe, clean, lave, moisten, mop, scour, scrub, color, tint, lap, (*n*) soak, ablution, washing; *antonym* (*v*) dirty.
- **60.TT** bolt; *synonyms* (n) arrow, dash, pin, catch, (v) bar, abscond, gobble, latch, lock, escape, decamp, devour, fasten, gulp, (adv) bang; *antonyms* (v) nibble, unbolt, unlock.
- **болюче** painfully; *synonyms* (*adv*) grievously, sorely, hard, distressingly, badly, severely, agonizingly, awkwardly, dreadfully, excruciatingly, impossibly, insufferably, unbearably, clearly, completely.
- **болючий** painful; *synonyms* (*adj*) difficult, hard, sore, afflictive, bad, grievous, harrowing, sharp, aching, arduous, bitter, dolorous, excruciating, harsh, (*v*) distressing; *antonyms* (*adj*) painless, content.
- **бомба** bomb; *synonyms* (*n*) grenade, shell, dud, rocket, bullet, explosive, fiasco, failure, (*v*) blast, bombard, fail, flop, explode.

- **бомбардувати** bomb; *synonyms* (*n*) grenade, shell, dud, rocket, bullet, explosive, fiasco, failure, (*v*) blast, bombard, fail, flop, explode.
- **бонус** bonus; *synonyms* (n) award, compensation, premium, dividend, gift, gratuity, perk, prize, reward, addition, benefit, payment, perquisite, incentive, (adj) extra; *antonym* (n) disadvantage.
- 6op bore; synonyms (v) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (n) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (adj) pother; antonyms (v) interest, excite, fascinate.
- 60pr debt; synonyms (n) debit, score, due, liability, obligation, bill, commitment, indebtment, charge, amount, cost, damage, deduction, dette, dueness.
- **борець 1.** fighter; *synonyms* (*n*) combatant, battler, belligerent, champion, soldier, warrior, militant, activist, crusader, **2**. defender; *synonyms* (*n*) advocate, guard, guardian, patron, protector, exponent, keeper, proponent, upholder, adherent, support; *antonyms* (*n*) assailant, attacker.
- **боржник** debtor; *synonyms* (n) bankrupt, debitor, levanter, stag, welsher, delinquent, insolvent, nonpayer, cheat.
- **борода** beard; *synonyms* (n) awn, hair, whiskers, disguise, sloven, (v) dare, defy, camouflage, mask, (adj) brave.
- **60potucs 1.** struggle; synonyms (n) contest, battle, combat, conflict, strain, effort, exertion, scramble, scuffle, (v) fight, attempt, dispute, endeavor, labor, quarrel; antonyms (v) flourish, glide, **2.** fight; synonyms (v) feud, argue, bicker, campaign, clash, contend, encounter, compete, affray, (n) engagement, contention, squabble, struggle, action, (adj) brawl; antonyms (v) agree, retreat, withdrawal, **3.** combat; synonyms (n) fighting, fray, war, hostility, skirmish, strife, warfare, (v) oppose, resist, wrestle, tilt, attack, engage, grapple, withstand, **4.** buffet; synonyms (n) blow, canteen, restaurant, impact, (v) beat, batter, cuff, buff, hit, knock, punch, smack, belabor, strike, thump.
- 60p0τь6a 1. struggle; synonyms (n) contest, battle, combat, conflict, strain, effort, exertion, scramble, scuffle, (v) fight, attempt, dispute, endeavor, labor, quarrel; antonyms (v) flourish, glide, 2. fight; synonyms (v) feud, argue, bicker, campaign, clash, contend, encounter, compete, affray, (n) engagement, contention, squabble, struggle, action, (adj) brawl; antonyms (v) agree, retreat, withdrawal, 3. warfare; synonyms (n) war, fighting, hostility, hostilities, opposition, 4. combat; synonyms (n) fray, skirmish, strife, warfare, altercation, (v) oppose, resist, wrestle, tilt, attack, engage, grapple, withstand.
- **борошно 1**. flour; *synonyms* (n) flower, (v) powder, (adj) meal, bran, paddy, rice, spore, sporule, **2**. meal; *synonyms* (n) food, feed, flour, repast, banquet, spread, bite.
- **60pt 1**. board; *synonyms* (n) council, bench, meal, panel, table, office, sign, commission, committee, court, embark, plank, (v) keep, lodge, accommodate; *antonym* (v) disembark, **2**. side; *synonyms* (n) edge, rim, faction, border, brink, direction, face, part, hand, aspect, facet, margin, page, position, (v) party; *antonym* (adj) distant.

- 60c boss; synonyms (n) chief, governor, head, overseer, superior, ruler, administrator, captain, director, executive, foreman, leader, (v) administer, govern, direct.
- **60CHK** stiff; synonyms (adj) rigid, hard, difficult, formal, inflexible, firm, numb, rigorous, severe, solid, sturdy, (adv) tight, (n) stark, cadaver, corpse; antonyms (adj) relaxed, flexible, floppy, soft, supple, free, pliable.
- **бочка 1.** barrel; *synonyms* (*n*) drum, roll, vessel, barrelful, cask, container, vase, vat, jar, plug, much, pot, bbl, bushel, (*v*) fly, **2**. vat; *synonyms* (*n*) tub, barrel, tun.
- **боязкий** fearful; *synonyms* (*adj*) afraid, cowardly, dreadful, anxious, apprehensive, awful, craven, terrible, timid, dire, eerie, formidable, frightful, appalling, awesome; *antonyms* (*adj*) brave, calm, rational, bold, confident, unimpressed.
- **609THCS** fear (CTPAX); synonyms (n) apprehension, awe, alarm, dismay, doubt, anguish, care, consternation, foreboding, fright, trepidation, worry, (v) dread, concern, reverence; antonyms (n) bravery, confidence, fearlessness, reassurance.
- 6paκ 1. lack; synonyms (n) want, deficiency, need, absence, dearth, default, defect, deficit, famine, insufficiency, poverty, shortage, (v) destitution, fail, fault; antonyms (n) abundance, excess, provision, (v) have, 2. reject; synonyms (v) refuse, decline, deny, disapprove, discard, dismiss, eliminate, exclude, rebuff, abandon, disallow, disown, ignore, renounce, (n) cull; antonyms (v) accept, approve, choose, select, acknowledge, grant.
- **бракувати 1**. want; *synonyms* (*v*) need, desire, (*n*) lack, poverty, wish, deficiency, deprivation, famine, absence, dearth, demand, destitution, indigence, necessity, penury; *antonyms* (*v*) dislike, hate, **2**. cast; *synonyms* (*v*) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (*n*) appearance, casting, mold, **3**. lack; *synonyms* (*n*) want, default, defect, deficit, insufficiency, shortage, shortcoming, inadequacy, drought, vacancy, failing, (*v*) fail, fault, failure, require; *antonyms* (*n*) abundance, excess, provision, (*v*) have.
- **брама** gate; *synonyms* (n) entrance, door, entry, mouth, doorway, exit, port, approach, threshold, gateway, opening, porch, portal, way, turnout.
- **6pat** brother; *synonyms* (n) fellow, pal, associate, buddy, chum, companion, compeer, comrade, counterpart, crony, friend, mate, monk, peer, sidekick; *antonym* (n) sister
- **брати** take; *synonyms* (ν) admit, get, hold, adopt, bear, carry, catch, clutch, obtain, return, borrow, pick, (n) seize, (phr) accept, receive; *antonyms* (ν) give, refuse, abstain, add, lose.
- **братство** fellowship; *synonyms* (*n*) brotherhood, community, companionship, company, communion, familiarity, camaraderie, association, society, acquaintance, body, club, family, fraternity, (*adj*) intercourse.
- **брезент** canvas; *synonyms* (n) picture, duck, sail, sheet, (ν) canvass, painting, tableau.
- **брехати** lie; *synonyms* (v) consist, repose, falsify, belong, couch, (n) fabrication, falsehood, falsity, fib, fiction, rest,

- untruth, bluff, counterfeit, deceit; *antonyms* (v) stand, (n) truth.
- **брехливий** lying; *synonyms* (*adj*) deceitful, false, deceptive, mendacious, untrue, misleading, fraudulent, recumbent, (*n*) fabrication, falsehood, lie, deceit, dishonesty, duplicity, prevarication; *antonyms* (*adj*) honest, (*n*) honesty.
- 6pexhs 1. lie; synonyms (v) consist, repose, falsify, belong, couch, (n) fabrication, falsehood, falsity, fib, fiction, rest, untruth, bluff, counterfeit, deceit; antonyms (v) stand, (n) truth, 2. lying; synonyms (adj) deceitful, false, deceptive, mendacious, untrue, misleading, fraudulent, recumbent, deceiving, dishonest, (n) lie, dishonesty, duplicity, prevarication, equivocation; antonyms (adj) honest, (n) honesty.
- бригада 1. brigade; synonyms (n) detachment, army, division, battalion, corps, legion, contingent, battalia, column, garrison, host, wing, battery, platoon, sotnia, 2. team; synonyms (n) crew, company, gang, squad, organization, party, side, troop, couple, brigade, faction, group, (v) pair, band, (adj) rank, 3. gang; synonyms (n) circle, crowd, association, bunch, mob, pack, team, assemblage, clique, club, horde, knot, ring, set, swarm, 4. crew; synonyms (n) cluster, assembly, bevy, gathering, partnership, personnel, staff, communion, corporation.
- **бридкий 1.** nasty; *synonyms* (*adj*) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, awful, mean, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, distasteful, evil, hurtful, obnoxious, raw; *antonyms* (*adj*) agreeable, kind, pleasant, nice, charitable, lovely, **2.** ugly; *synonyms* (*adj*) nasty, forbidding, frightful, gruesome, hideous, homely, repulsive, surly, offensive, atrocious, deformed, despicable, grotesque, horrible, monstrous; *antonyms* (*adj*) beautiful, attractive, good-looking, flowing, ornamental
- **брижі** surge; *synonyms* (n) wave, burst, ripple, spurt, (v) billow, flood, rise, rush, stream, flow, gush, heave, jet, swell. soar.
- **бризкати** jet; *synonyms* (n) squirt, fountain, flow, spout, spray, airplane, current, outpouring, (ν) gush, spurt, fly, pour, flood, emit, (adj) raven.
- **брикатися** kick; *synonyms* (*n*) beef, bitch, gripe, thrill, bang, charge, excitement, flush, hit, (*ν*) boot, grumble, recoil, spurn, protest, complain.
- 6puket 1. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow,
   2. cake; synonyms (n) bar, pastry, lump, pie, (v) harden, set, (adi) clot, fix.
- **брила 1.** block; *synonyms* (n) bar, barricade, pad, clog, cluster, (v) arrest, stop, hinder, encumber, halt, lock, obstruct, parry, plug, (adj) lump; *antonyms* (v) free, unblock, open, **2.** lump; *synonyms* (n) heap, chunk, knot, block, clod, hunk, tumor, bit, bulge, clump, fragment, knob, (v) clot, (adj) mass, lout.
- **бриль** hat; *synonyms* (n) cap, chapeau, lid, sou'wester, bonus, eyelid, palpebra, (adj) hot.

- **брі**д ford; *synonyms* (n) crossing, tunnel, carrefour, cleft, crossbreeding, crossover, crossroad, crosswalk, (v) cross, pass, care, character, circulate, come, condition.
- **брова** brow; *synonyms* (*n*) peak, brink, height, crown, edge, eyebrow, forehead, front, rim, summit, top, verge, landing.
- **δροκερ** broker; synonyms (n) mediator, agent, gobetween, factor, middleman, dealer, attorney, intermediary, bailiff, merchant.
- **бронза** bronze; *synonyms* (*adj*) bronzy, embrown, boldness, (*n*) tan, brown, bust, effigy, figure, figurine, head, iridescence, sculpture, statuette, (*v*) marble, plate.
- **бронзовий** bronze; *synonyms* (*adj*) bronzy, embrown, boldness, (*n*) tan, brown, bust, effigy, figure, figurine, head, iridescence, sculpture, statuette, (*v*) marble, plate.
- броня armour; synonym (v) armor.
- **брошура** brochure; *synonyms* (*n*) booklet, leaflet, pamphlet, folder, handout, manual, book.
- **брошюра** booklet; *synonyms* (*n*) brochure, book, leaflet, folder, pamphlet, flyer, manual, catalog, circular, guide, handout, list, magazine, almanac, bookling.
- бруд dirt; synonyms (n) soil, dust, filth, grime, crap, ground, mire, scandal, contamination, smudge, dirtiness, foulness, impurity, land, muck.
- брудний 1. dirty; synonyms (adj) foul, dirt, contemptible, bawdy, contaminated, dingy, impure, despicable, (v) muddy, corrupt, soil, contaminate, begrime, bemire, (n) defile; antonyms (adj) hygienic, pure, spotless, immaculate, (v) clean, 2. filthy; synonyms (adj) dirty, nasty, unclean, disgusting, squalid, awful, grimy, grubby, indecent, ribald, smutty, sordid, vile, vulgar, distasteful; antonym (adj) decent, 3. muddy; synonyms (adj) boggy, cloudy, filthy, turbid, dark, dull, marshy, miry, murky, sloppy, gloomy, confused, (v) blur, cloud, dim; antonyms (adj) clear, dry, 4. nasty; synonyms (adj) loathsome, mean, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, evil, hurtful, obnoxious, raw, repulsive, unpleasant, dangerous, gross, hateful, (adv) beastly; antonyms (adj) agreeable, kind, pleasant, nice, charitable, lovely.
- **бруднити 1**. dirty; *synonyms* (*adj*) foul, dirt, contemptible, bawdy, contaminated, dingy, impure, despicable, (*v*) muddy, corrupt, soil, contaminate, begrime, bemire, (*n*) defile; *antonyms* (*adj*) hygienic, pure, spotless, immaculate, (*v*) clean, **2**. soil; *synonyms* (*n*) ground, grime, land, dust, (*v*) smudge, blot, dirty, pollute, mire, blemish, mould, smear, smirch, smutch, (*adi*) blur.
- **δργκίβκα** pavement; *synonyms* (n) footpath, paving, walk, path, pathway, sidewalk, ground, trottoir.
- **Брунатний** brown; *synonyms* (*adj*) chocolate, swarthy, tanned, (*n*) brunette, brownness, tan, (*v*) sear, cook, fry; *antonym* (*adj*) pale.
- **брунька** button; *synonyms* (*n*) knop, buckle, bud, clasp, fastening, key, push, (*v*) knob, fasten, (*adj*) pin, tie.
- 6pyc beam; synonyms (n) blaze, glow, ray, timber, flash, joist, light, (v) glare, air, broadcast, gleam, grin, radiate, smile, (adj) shine.
- **6pycoκ** bar (6ap); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow.

- **брутальний 1**. brutal; *synonyms* (*adj*) beastly, barbaric, barbarous, bestial, hard, cruel, harsh, savage, truculent, unkind, vicious, barbarian, boarish, rugged, tough; *antonyms* (*adj*) gentle, kind, merciful, liberal, **2**. rude; *synonyms* (*adj*) gross, rough, impudent, blunt, coarse, bold, brutal, crude, discourteous, impolite, mean, abusive, churlish, crass, (*n*) abrupt; *antonyms* (*adj*) polite, respectful, chivalrous, courteous, refined, civil, decent, proper, well-mannered.
- **6pyxt** debris; *synonyms* (*n*) detritus, junk, refuse, rubbish, trash, waste, garbage, wreck, muck, remains, ruins, scrap, litter, (*adj*) rubble.
- **бубонець** bell; *synonyms* (n) chime, gong, ring, buzz, doorbell, alarm, siren, clang, call, buzzer, campana, cymbal, sign, sound, supplement.
- бувай bye; *synonyms* (n) adieu, adios, cheerio, arrivederci, pass, sayonara, crack, dwelling, fling, flip, (adj) delitescent, private, retired, secluded, sequestered.
- **бувати** be; *synonyms* (*v*) exist, live, act, consist, constitute, represent, cost, follow, form, lie, remain, rest, stay, subsist, (*n*) stand.
- **бугай** bull (бик); *synonyms* (*n*) bullshit, bunk, hogwash, rot, absurdity, bear, buck, buncombe, bunkum, cop, copper, crap, fuzz, guff, (*adj*) blunder.
- **будильник** clock; *synonyms* (n) alarm, chronograph, knock, whack, punch, thump, face, heart, (v) time, measure, stopwatch, attack, count, inspect, note.
- **будинок 1**. house; *synonyms* (n) family, home, dwelling, firm, abode, domicile, building, edifice, habitation, housing, establishment, structure, ancestry, (v) accommodate, lodge, **2**. building; *synonyms* (n) architecture, construction, fabric, fabrication, house, assembly, creation, mansion, (v) pile, (*adj*) augmentative, augmenting.
- **будиночок** lodge; *synonyms* (n) house, club, cottage, hut, inn, (v) cabin, live, place, accommodate, deposit, fix, inhabit, quarter, (adj) abide, dwell.
- будити 1. wake; synonyms (v) awaken, awake, rouse, stir, arouse, excite, provoke, vigil, waken, kindle, (n) train, trail, backwash, track, wave; antonym (v) sleep, 2. awake; synonyms (adj) alive, alert, attentive, conscious, aware, intelligent, keen, sleepless, acute, (v) wake, stimulate; antonyms (adj) asleep, unconscious, comatose, sleeping, sleepy.
- **будівельний 1.** constructive; *synonyms* (*adj*) positive, beneficial, helpful, productive, useful, worthwhile, practical; *antonyms* (*adj*) negative, unhelpful, destructive, **2.** structural; *synonyms* (*adj*) organic, tectonic, geomorphologic, geomorphological, morphologic, morphological, edificial, fundamental.
- **будівля 1.** building; *synonyms* (*n*) architecture, establishment, construction, fabric, fabrication, house, assembly, creation, mansion, structure, (*v*) edifice, pile, (*adj*) augmentative, augmenting, **2.** construction; *synonyms* (*n*) building, formation, frame, organization, production, arrangement, constitution, make, making, reading, anatomy, conformation, design, development, exposition; *antonym* (*n*) destruction, **3.** structure; *synonyms* (*n*) form, shape, framework, composition, erection, system, build, configuration, scheme, skeleton, texture, complex, hull, order, machinery.

- **будівник** builder; *synonyms* (n) architect, constructor, founder, artificer, creator, developer, maker, manufacturer, artist, engineer.
- будівництво construction; synonyms (n) building, fabrication, formation, structure, assembly, fabric, frame, organization, production, arrangement, constitution, creation, edifice, make, making; antonym (n) destruction.
- **будка 1.** cabin; *synonyms* (n) booth, hut, chamber, cot, lodge, room, shed, stall, apartment, **2.** box; *synonyms* (n) basket, cage, chest, package, blow, carton, case, container, crate, envelope, (ν) cuff, buffet, beat, fight, hit; *antonym* (ν) unbox.
- **будова 1**. construction; *synonyms* (*n*) building, fabrication, formation, structure, assembly, fabric, frame, organization, production, arrangement, constitution, creation, edifice, make, making; *antonym* (*n*) destruction, **2**. state (держава); *synonyms* (*n*) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, place, (*v*) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, (*adj*) national; *antonyms* (*v*) deny, (*adj*) private.
- **будування** construction; *synonyms* (*n*) building, fabrication, formation, structure, assembly, fabric, frame, organization, production, arrangement, constitution, creation, edifice, make, making; *antonym* (*n*) destruction.
- **δyηγΒατυ 1**. construct; *synonyms* (*v*) make, build, compose, erect, fabricate, form, arrange, constitute, manufacture, produce, raise, rear, assemble, compile, (*n*) concept; *antonyms* (*v*) destroy, demolish, **2**. build; *synonyms* (*v*) establish, rise, base, construct, create, fashion, found, formulate, calculate, (*n*) shape, frame, construction, figure, built, conformation.
- **будь-що** anything; *synonyms* (*pron*) whatever, suchlike, (*n*) aught, thing, aucht, (*adv*) anywise.
- **будь-який 1.** whatever; *synonyms* (*adj*) any, whatsoever, (*pron*) what, partly, somewhat, whatso, whosoever, (*adv*) anyway, regardless, **2.** whatsoever; *synonyms* (*adj*) whatever, possible, (*pron*) anything, **3.** either; *synonym* (*conj*) other, **4.** any; *synonyms* (*adj*) all, either, whichever, every, several, some, alone, few, ony, quantitative, only, (*n*) aught, part, (*pron*) who.
- буйний 1. violent; synonyms (adj) fierce, rough, tempestuous, intense, raging, severe, turbulent, vehement, sharp, passionate, powerful, savage, stormy, (n) furious, boisterous; antonyms (adj) gentle, peaceful, calm, nonviolent, 2. turbulent; synonyms (adj) tumultuous, disorderly, noisy, riotous, violent, wild, rude, troubled, unruly, agitated, angry, loud, (v) rampant, clamorous, (n) rugged, 3. rank; synonyms (n) range, place, file, gradation, line, degree, quality, (v) arrange, order, class, classify, grade, position, array, group; antonym (adj) fresh.
- **буква** letter; *synonyms* (*n*) epistle, mail, character, communication, dispatch, memorandum, message, note, type, inscription, learning, memo, missive, ticket, (*v*) print.
- буклет booklet; synonyms (n) brochure, book, leaflet, folder, pamphlet, flyer, manual, catalog, circular, guide, handout, list, magazine, almanac, bookling.

- **булава** club; *synonyms* (*n*) association, bat, circle, society, stick, baton, company, cudgel, fraternity, gang, group, guild, (*v*) beat, bludgeon, hit.
- **булочка** roll; *synonyms* (n) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (v) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow.
- **6ym** boom; *synonyms* (n) bang, roar, noise, bar, din, peal, (v) blast, blare, flourish, sound, thrive, thunder, bellow, clang, prosper; *antonyms* (n) depression, (v) collapse, decline
- **бумажник** wallet; *synonyms* (*n*) purse, bag, billfold, notecase, pocketbook, case, satchel.
- **бунгало** bungalow; *synonyms* (*n*) cottage, hut, building, home, accommodation, kiosk, apartment, farmhouse, igloo, loft, manor, mansion, studio, terrace.
- **бункер** bin; *synonyms* (n) bunker, binful, box, case, container, silo, closet, locker, basket, casket, trashcan, carton, cellaret, (v) store, discard.
- **6yht 1.** rebellion; *synonyms* (n) insurrection, mutiny, revolt, disobedience, uprising, defiance, outbreak, revolution, unrest, commotion, disorder, rebel, disturbance, insurgence, rising, **2.** riot; *synonyms* (n) sedition, tumult, rebellion, brawl, fight, fray, confusion, debauch, debauchery, orgy, trouble, (v) carouse, (*adj*) hubbub, uproar, row, **3.** outbreak; *synonyms* (n) epidemic, eruption, explosion, burst, onset, outburst, attack, flood, rash, spate, spell, storm, upsurge, emeute, plague.
- **δyHTap** rebel; *synonyms* (n) insurgent, nonconformist, anarchist, dissident, insurrectionist, traitor, (ν) mutiny, renegade, arise, disobey, revolt, rise, oppose, (*adj*) mutineer, rebellious; *antonym* (n) conformist.
- **бунтувати 1**. rebel; *synonyms* (*n*) insurgent, nonconformist, anarchist, dissident, insurrectionist, traitor, (*v*) mutiny, renegade, arise, disobey, revolt, rise, oppose, (*adj*) mutineer, rebellious; *antonym* (*n*) conformist, **2**. riot; *synonyms* (*n*) disturbance, commotion, disorder, insurrection, sedition, tumult, rebellion, brawl, fight, fray, confusion, (*v*) rebel, carouse, (*adī*) hubbub, uproar.
- **6yp** bit; *synonyms* (n) crumb, morsel, piece, atom, drop, fleck, fragment, moment, part, portion, shred, snatch, (ν) curb, scrap, scantling.
- буржуазія bourgeoisie; synonym (n) class.
- **буржуазний** bourgeois; *synonyms* (*adj*) conservative, common, conventional, democratic, materialistic, square, (*n*) capitalist, burgess, capitals, caps, cockney, epicier, brevier, businessperson, people.
- **бурити** bore; *synonyms* (*v*) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (*n*) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (*adj*) pother; *antonyms* (*v*) interest, excite, fascinate.
- **буріння** boring; *synonyms* (*adj*) dull, tedious, tiresome, annoying, arid, bland, dreary, monotonous, prosaic, tame, uninteresting, wearisome, vapid, drab, (*n*) drilling; *antonyms* (*adj*) exciting, fascinating, interesting, gripping, original, thrilling, varied.
- **бурхливий** turbulent; *synonyms* (*adj*) tempestuous, tumultuous, rough, furious, boisterous, disorderly, noisy, riotous, violent, wild, rude, troubled, unruly, agitated, (*n*) stormy; *antonym* (*adj*) calm.

- **бурхливо** roughly; *synonyms* (*adv*) coarsely, almost, around, rough, harshly, some, generally, hardly, violently, fiercely, (*prep*) about, approximately, circa, (*adj*) nearly; *antonyms* (*adv*) gently, softly, smoothly.
- **буря** storm; *synonyms* (n) tempest, attack, shower, blizzard, burst, gust, hurricane, (v) rage, rush, assault, fume, hail, charge, bluster, invade.
- **бутель** bottle (пляшка); *synonyms* (n) container, flask, jug, jar, pot, carboy, gourd, (v) preserve, can.
- **бутербро**д sandwich; *synonym* (v) interlard.
- **6yth 1.** be; *synonyms* (*v*) exist, live, act, consist, constitute, represent, cost, follow, form, lie, remain, rest, stay, subsist, (*n*) stand, **2**. exist; *synonyms* (*v*) dwell, be, endure, abide, belong, continue, occur, survive, hold; *antonym* (*v*) die, **3**. present; *synonyms* (*adj*) grant, confer, (*n*) gift, donation, (*v*) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; *antonyms* (*adj*) missing, (*n*) past, future, history, (*v*) withdraw, (*adv*) absent.
- **δyφep** buffer; *synonyms* (n) safeguard, pad, protection, bumper, fender, shield, block, (ν) cushion.
- 6yφeτ 1. cupboard; synonyms (n) closet, cabinet, buffet, commode, compartment, cranny, cub, nook, pigeonhole, bin, breakfront, bunker, cellaret, clothespress, cubicle, 2. canteen; synonyms (n) flask, bottle, estaminet, posada, cafeteria, hall, amphora, bar, barrel, butt, caldron, carboy, cask, container, crock, 3. buffet; synonyms (n) blow, canteen, restaurant, impact, (v) beat, batter, cuff, buff, hit, knock, punch, smack, belabor, strike, thump.
- **бухгалтер** accountant; *synonyms* (*n*) auditor, teller, cashier, controller, almoner, liquidator, clerk, accomptant, comptroller, logothete, questor, receiver, steward, trustee, (*adj*) accountable.
- **6yxra** bay; *synonyms* (n) alcove, bark, recess, cry, harbor, fiord, sound, cove, embayment, gulf, (adj) brown, (v) yap, roar, bellow, howl.
- **буцатися** put; *synonyms* (*v*) place, fix, lay, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, (*n*) deposit.
- **бушувати** storm (буря); *synonyms* (*n*) tempest, attack, shower, blizzard, burst, gust, hurricane, (*v*) rage, rush, assault, fume, hail, charge, bluster, invade.
- **бювар** desk; *synonyms* (n) bench, box, coffer, table, caddy, caisson, case, casket, chest.
- бюджет budget; synonyms (n) plan, sack, finance, portfolio, quiver, reckoning, score, bag, forecast, (v) calculate, compute, estimate, allocate, appropriate, (adj) chean.
- **бюлетень** bulletin; *synonyms* (*n*) announcement, declaration, account, bill, message, dispatch, news, communication, communiqué, journal, leaflet, brochure, newsletter, newssheet, tidings.
- 6iopo 1. bureau; synonyms (n) agency, office, authority, chest, department, desk, dresser, box, 2. office; synonyms (n) charge, duty, function, position, commission, appointment, division, berth, bureau, job, part, place, post, engagement, employment, 3. pool; synonyms (n) plash, lake, pond, mere, cartel, basin, kitty, syndicate, trust, billiards, lough, store, (ν) combine, merge, associate.

- **бюрократичний** bureaucratic; *synonyms* (*adj*) administrative, authoritative, bossy, impersonal, practical, technical, bureaucratical, ceremonial, fussy, interfering, intrusive, overbearing, ritual, routine.
- **διοροκρατίя** bureaucracy; *synonyms* (n) bureaucratism, apparatus, cabinet, fascism, formalities, government, authority, beadledom, directorate, establishment, management, ministry, officials, paperwork, system.

### B

- **B 1.** in (y); *synonyms* (*prep*) during, between, by, through, at, inside, (*adv*) indoors, inward, (*n*) inch, (*adj*) stylish, fashionable, inwards, trendy, within, modish; *antonyms* (*prep*) out, outside, **2.** at; *synonyms* (*prep*) in, a, (*n*) astatine, (*adv*) on, along, (*prf*) all, completely, wholly, (*adj*) entertainment, levee, party, reception, conversazione, home, soiree, **3.** to; *synonyms* (*prep*) about, before, against, into, near, toward, towards, until, unto, (*adv*) versus, (*v*) till.
- Bara 1. weight; synonyms (n) load, burden, charge, consequence, heaviness, importance, pressure, significance, stress, ballast, bias, import, influence, moment, (v) gravity; antonym (n) triviality, 2. authority (Bлада); synonyms (n) ascendancy, command, sanction, administration, authorization, dominance, domination, hold, judge, power, professional, rule, warrant, lordship, agency, 3. burden; synonyms (n) anxiety, pack, strain, bale, care, cargo, concern, core, (v) bother, weight, burthen, clog, trouble, afflict, encumber; antonyms (v) relieve, unburden.
- **вагання** hesitation; *synonyms* (*n*) hesitance, faltering, delay, hesitate, diffidence, hesitancy, indecision, misgiving, pause, qualm, reluctance, (*v*) doubt, falter, fear, hesitating; *antonyms* (*n*) certainty, persuasiveness.
- BAFATUCS 1. deliberate; synonyms (adj) careful, calculated, circumspect, slow, thoughtful, conscious, (v) consider, cogitate, consult, debate, think, confer, contemplate, ponder, reflect; antonyms (adj) accidental, chance, unintentional, hasty, ingenuous, involuntary, spontaneous, 2. halt; synonyms (n) stay, block, cessation, suspension, (v) stop, arrest, cease, check, limp, desist, discontinue, hold, pause, freeze, break; antonyms (v) start, continue.
- **Ваги** balance; *synonyms* (*n*) poise, symmetry, excess, remainder, account, complement, counterpoise, credit, (*v*) counterbalance, adjust, offset, compensate, contrast, settle, audit; *antonyms* (*n*) imbalance, (*v*) unbalance.
- Baritha pregnant; synonyms (adj) pithy, significant, fraught, enceinte, expectant, gravid, heavy, big, meaning, teeming, important, (v) telling, emphatic.
- **вагітний** pregnant; *synonyms* (*adj*) pithy, significant, fraught, enceinte, expectant, gravid, heavy, big, meaning, teeming, important, (*v*) telling, emphatic.
- **Barithicts** pregnancy; *synonyms* (*n*) gravidity, gestation, fertility, behavior, childbearing, departure, doings, fetation, going, pregnance, uterogestation, traveling, (*adj*) procreation, propagation, pullulation.

- Вагомий 1. valid (дійсний); synonyms (adj) legal, sound, right, genuine, solid, forcible, substantial, authentic, good, legitimate, powerful, rightful, strong, true, cogent; antonyms (adj) unacceptable, invalid, annulled, bogus, illogical, 2. grave; synonyms (adj) austere, critical, serious, severe, solemn, earnest, bad, dangerous, deep, grand, important, sad, sedate, (v) acute, engrave; antonyms (adj) mild, frivolous, funny.
- **Baromicts** validity; *synonyms* (*n*) force, truth, authority, legitimacy, soundness, certainty, cogency, effect, power, effectiveness, reality, authenticity, vigor, credibility, hardness
- **BAFOH 1.** coach; *synonyms* (n) trainer, tutor, instructor, teacher, autobus, bus, carriage, charabanc, stagecoach, cart, (v) train, educate, groom, instruct, (adj) prime, **2**. car; *synonyms* (n) automobile, auto, coach, truck, vehicle, tramcar, coupe, jalopy, gondola, machine, motorcar, railcar, limousine, **3**. carriage; *synonyms* (n) attitude, transport, behavior, conveyance, air, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, walk, (v) bearing.
- **ΒΑΓΟΗΕΤΚΑ 1.** CAT; *synonyms* (n) automobile, auto, carriage, coach, truck, vehicle, tramcar, coupe, jalopy, gondola, machine, motorcar, railcar, limousine, **2**. carriage; *synonyms* (n) attitude, transport, behavior, conveyance, air, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, walk, (ν) bearing, **3**. trolley; *synonyms* (n) streetcar, tram, tramway, catch, repetition, ropeway, round, routine, (ν) airplane, autobus, bus, minivan, motorbike, omnibus, plane.
- вада defect; *synonyms* (*n*) fault, blemish, blot, flaw, shortcoming, deficiency, failing, imperfection, scar, weakness, dearth, deformity, foible, (*v*) desert, (*adj*) infirmity.
- **вадити** affect; *synonyms* (v) touch, move, act, fake, feign, impress, pretend, strike, concern, dispose, dissemble, hit, influence, involve, lead.
- **Важити** weight; *synonyms* (n) load, burden, charge, consequence, heaviness, importance, pressure, significance, stress, ballast, bias, import, influence, moment, (v) gravity; *antonym* (n) triviality.
- важкий 1. hard; synonyms (adj) austere, bad, difficult, grave, severe, strong, arduous, callous, cruel, grueling, knotty, tough, (adv) firm, (v) acute, (n) rough; antonyms (adj) easy, soft, kind, merciful, simple, soggy, tender, yielding, (adv) gently, lightly, 2. heavy; synonyms (adj) dull, deep, dark, dense, fat, full, gross, hard, bulky, burdensome, grievous, oppressive, thick, compact, ample; antonyms (adj) light, slim, thin, slight, gentle, puny, skinny, 3. difficult; synonyms (adj) awkward, demanding, complicated, delicate, fastidious, uphill, finicky, abstruse, ambitious, cantankerous, complex, contrary, crabby, disagreeable, exacting; antonyms (adj) straightforward, good-natured, rewarding, clear, 4. trying; synonyms (adj) taxing, annoying, bothersome, rugged, thorny, tiresome, painful, troublesome, irritating, exhausting, exasperating, maddening, tedious, wearing, (n) testing, 5. robust; synonyms (adj) healthy, athletic, brawny, muscular, powerful, vigorous, lusty, mighty, healthful, hearty, stout, sturdy, forcible, masculine, (n) hardy; antonyms (adj) weak, fragile, frail.

- **Важко** hard; *synonyms* (*adj*) austere, bad, difficult, grave, severe, strong, arduous, callous, cruel, grueling, knotty, tough, (*adv*) firm, (*v*) acute, (*n*) rough; *antonyms* (*adj*) easy, soft, kind, merciful, simple, soggy, tender, yielding, (*adv*) gently, lightly.
- важливий 1. important; synonyms (adj) essential, grave, fundamental, significant, chief, crucial, key, remarkable, serious, earnest, authoritative, big, central, consequential, considerable; antonyms (adj) unimportant, insignificant, trivial, minor, irrelevant, low, worthless, 2. serious; synonyms (adj) heavy, sedate, austere, great, hard, critical, dangerous, grievous, sad, sober, bad, deep, major, (v) important, momentous; antonyms (adj) frivolous, lighthearted, cheerful, flippant, humorous, mild, playful, slight, 3. grand; synonyms (adj) excellent, gorgeous, dignified, elevated, eminent, exalted, majestic, superb, beautiful, high, massive, brilliant, famous, (n) glorious, noble; antonyms (adj) unimpressive, humble, modest, 4. grave; synonyms (adj) severe, solemn, grand, material, calm, dull, somber, (n) cemetery, death, sepulchre, sepulture, (v) acute, engrave, carve, etch; antonym (adj) funny, 5. considerable; synonyms (adj) large, ample, sizable, substantial, influential, meaningful, pretty, extensive, fair, generous, good, goodly, handsome, huge, marked; antonyms (adi) small, faint, 6. big (великий); synonyms (adj) thick, sturdy, adult, burly, hefty, liberal, magnanimous, spacious, stout, vast, loud, boastful, bountiful, braggart, bulky; antonyms (adj) little, puny, (syn) tiny, 7. significant; synonyms (adj) emphatic, expressive, indicative, pregnant, relevant, meaning, eloquent, historic, noteworthy, portentous, prominent, vital, appreciable, decisive, impressive, 8. substantial; synonyms (adj) actual, solid, firm, real, strong, palpable, sound, concrete, corporeal, durable, hearty, satisfying, substantive, tangible, stable; antonyms (adj) insubstantial, ethereal, fine.
- важливість 1. importance; synonyms (n) greatness, account, gravity, dignity, import, concern, consequence, emphasis, prominence, stress, value, influence, magnitude, matter, prestige; antonyms (n) insignificance, unimportance, triviality, 2. concern; synonyms (n) business, affair, regard, attention, anxiety, bother, company, apprehension, burden, disquiet, (v) worry, affect, care, interest, trouble; antonym (v) unconcern, 3. consequence; synonyms (n) effect, importance, outcome, product, result, aftermath, conclusion, corollary, event, moment, weight, backwash, end, impact, inference; antonyms (n) cause, inconsequence, 4. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, score, tale, description, explanation, history, narration, reason, recital, story, tab, tally, (v) report, 5. gravity; synonyms (n) earnestness, solemnity, graveness, gravitation, seriousness, significance, sedateness, austerity, staidness, gloominess, sobriety, somberness, (v) poise; antonyms (n) flippancy, lightheartedness, **6**. import; synonyms (n) meaning, sense, connotation, implication, purport, betoken, intent, substance, core, gist, (v) denote, imply, introduce, mean, spell; antonym (v) export, 7. significance; synonyms (n) point, content,

- signification, worth, moral, amount, idea, merit, message, eminence, **8**. magnitude; *synonyms* (n) extent, bulk, dimension, mass, proportion, size, amplitude, degree, largeness, intensity, enormity, measure, quantity, volume, breadth, **9**. moment; *synonyms* (n) flash, instant, jiffy, minute, bit, second, time, hour, juncture, occasion, trice, twinkling, wink, opportunity, tick.
- **важливіший** major; *synonyms* (*adj*) chief, key, large, main, superior, considerable, master, grave, fundamental, great, higher, important, leading, overriding, principal; *antonyms* (*adj*) minor, unimportant, lesser, petty, slight.
- **важливо** importantly; *synonyms* (*adv*) significantly, considerably, critically, crucially, decisively, fatefully, highly, principally, substantially, vitally, essentially, immensely, notably, outstandingly, remarkably.
- Ba3a bowl; synonyms (n) basin, pot, plate, container, hollow, stadium, arena, depression, bowlful, trough, (v) hurl, roll, toss, troll, trundle.
- **Baκancis** opening (οΤΒip); *synonyms* (n) gap, mouth, aperture, break, beginning, cleft, commencement, crack, door, entrance, hole, occasion, chasm, onset, (adf) preliminary; *antonyms* (n) end, closing, exit, finale, (adf) final.
- **Вакантний** vacant; *synonyms* (*adj*) empty, blank, hollow, bare, devoid, free, idle, unfilled, unoccupied, void, expressionless, deserted, open, vacuous, inane; *antonyms* (*adj*) full, occupied.
- **Bakyym** Vacuum; *synonyms* (n) emptiness, void, vacancy, vacuity, gap, nothingness, blank, inanity, chasm, (v) clean
- **вакуумний** vacuum; *synonyms* (n) emptiness, void, vacancy, vacuity, gap, nothingness, blank, inanity, chasm. (v) clean.
- вал bank (банк); *synonyms* (n) dam, coast, slope, store, limit, stack, bluff, heap, hill, riverside, (v) embankment, gradient, deposit, mound, rely; *antonym* (v) withdraw.
- **BAJINTH** fell; *synonyms* (*v*) chop, cut, drop, floor, ax, level, down, demolish, (*adj*) barbarous, cruel, prostrate, brutal, fierce, savage, (*n*) skin.
- **валіза** case; *synonyms* (*n*) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, (*adj*) patient.
- **Валізка** suitcase; *synonyms* (*n*) bag, case, grip, luggage, handbag, bagful, base, clasp, clench, clutch, clutches, dish, grasp, hairgrip, handgrip.
- **Валюта** currency; *synonyms* (*n*) cash, money, coin, circulation, vogue, dollar, currentness, publicity.
- **Валютний** monetary; *synonyms* (*adj*) financial, pecuniary, commercial, economic, numismatical, sumptuary, budgetary, capital, cash, pocket.
- **Ванна 1**. bath; *synonyms* (n) wash, bathroom, tank, bathtub, dip, tub, (v) bathe, immersion, affusion, balneation, clean, **2**. bathroom; *synonyms* (n) bath, lavatory, can, lav, privy, toilet, arse, ass, backside, basin, behind, bottom, bum, buns, butt.
- вантаж 1. cargo; *synonyms* (*n*) burden, loading, freight, wares, consignment, freightage, goods, haul, lading, merchandise, payload, shipment, weight, (*adj*) load, bushel, 2. load; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, cargo, stack,

- heap, pack, strain, anxiety, care, crowd, (v) fill, encumber, pile, lade, stow, glut; *antonym* (v) unload, **3**. burden; *synonyms* (n) bale, concern, core, encumbrance, essence, gist, imposition, (v) bother, burthen, clog, trouble, afflict, force, handicap, impose; *antonyms* (v) relieve, unburden, **4**. goods; *synonyms* (n) belongings, commodity, product, estate, chattels, commodities, effects, produce, property, stuff, wealth, gear, materials, possession, (v) furniture.
- **вантаження** shipping; *synonyms* (n) freight, transport, conveyance, transportation, moving, carrying, craft, ecstasy, exaltation, rapture, raptus, transferral, vehicle.
- **вантажити** ship; *synonyms* (*n*) boat, ferry, craft, bottom, (*v*) dispatch, send, forward, transport, consign, carry, embark, move, transfer, post, charge.
- **ΒαΗΤαЖΊΒΚα** truck; *synonyms* (*n*) traffic, car, cart, trade, van, bogie, automobile, cap, crest, motortruck, (*ν*) exchange, barter, swap, swop, transport.
- **вапно** lime; *synonyms* (*n*) birdlime, basswood, calx, lemon, cement, linden, quicklime, (*v*) forelay, (*adj*) green.
- **вапняк** limestone; *synonyms* (*n*) chalk, mineral, sandstone, stone, granite, marble.
- **варення** jam; *synonyms* (*n*) crush, crowd, fix, squeeze, congestion, conserve, dilemma, hole, (*v*) block, cram, bar, fill, force, gorge, hinder; *antonym* (*v*) free.
- **Варити** cook; *synonyms* (*n*) chef, (*v*) boil, bake, brew, make, prepare, concoct, falsify, grill, poach, roast, simmer, stew, coddle, heat.
- Bapiaht 1. version; synonyms (n) reading, translation, construction, interpretation, rendering, rendition, variation, account, description, variant, lection, report, story, explanation, paraphrase, 2. variation; synonyms (n) alteration, change, difference, divergence, mutation, variance, deviation, discrepancy, departure, fluctuation, disagreement, dissimilarity, permutation, contrast, distinction; antonym (n) similarity.
- Bapiaμis Variation; synonyms (n) alteration, change, difference, divergence, mutation, variance, deviation, discrepancy, departure, fluctuation, disagreement, dissimilarity, permutation, contrast, distinction; antonym (n) similarity.
- варка cooking; *synonyms* (*n*) cookery, food, chow, fare, foodstuff, groceries, provisions, rations, victuals, catering, conditioning, fodder, (*adj*) thriving, gastronomic.
- **Bapta** guard; *synonyms* (n) defend, defense, bulwark, care, cover, escort, protection, watchman, custody, convoy, defence, fender, guardsman, (v) shield, keep.
- вартий 1. worthy; synonyms (adj) noble, estimable, good, meritorious, respectable, valuable, deserving, honorable, suitable, virtuous, worthwhile, admirable, desirable, (n) celebrity, notable; antonym (adj) unworthy, 2. worth; synonyms (n) merit, value, cost, price, virtue, importance, excellence, dignity, quality, benefit, goodness, import, substance, fortune, profit; antonym (n) worthlessness.
- **Baptictb 1.** Value; *synonyms* (*n*) merit, cost, appraise, importance, rate, consequence, (*v*) price, appreciate, assess, esteem, evaluate, cherish, estimate, measure, prize; *antonyms* (*n*) disadvantage, futility, uselessness, insignificance, **2.** worth; *synonyms* (*n*) value, virtue,

- excellence, dignity, quality, benefit, goodness, import, good, substance, fortune, profit, use, wealth, worthiness; **antonym** (n) worthlessness, **3**. cost; **synonyms** (n) charge, amount, expense, toll, damage, disbursement, expenditure, fee, payment, worth, sacrifice, budget, forfeit, bill, (v) be, **4**. purchase (куплувати); **synonyms** (n) acquisition, bargain, leverage, acquirement, grip, hold, (v) buy, get, obtain, contract, acquire, bribe, gain, procure, take; **antonyms** (n) transaction, (v) sell.
- **вартовий** guard; *synonyms* (*n*) defend, defense, bulwark, care, cover, escort, protection, watchman, custody, convoy, defence, fender, guardsman, (*v*) shield, keep.
- **вартувати** watch; *synonyms* (*v*) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (*n*) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (*adj*) vigilance.
- **BATA** cotton; *synonyms* (n) thread, yarn, cord, fiber, string, affinity, bombace, packthread, rapport, strand, wire, (v) cater, coddle, fawn, (*adj*) exceptional.
- Bam yours; synonym (adj) own.
- **вбивати** kill; *synonyms* (*v*) assassinate, destroy, erase, annihilate, eliminate, extinguish, finish, blast, butcher, decimate, dispatch, eradicate, execute, (*n*) murder, game.
- вбивця killer; synonyms (n) assassin, murderer, slayer, grampus, poison, marauder, orca, playboy, (adj) murderous, deadly, fatal, competitive, lethal, ruthless, virulent.
- **вбивчий** killing; *synonyms* (*v*) captivating, fascinating, (*n*) homicide, carnage, manslaughter, assassination, bloodshed, cleanup, kill, massacre, murder, (*adj*) fatal, draining, deadly, pernicious.
- вбирати absorb; synonyms (v) consume, drink, engross, imbibe, assimilate, engage, occupy, suck, swallow, amuse, digest, engulf, fascinate, ingest, (adj) immerse; antonyms (v) bore, emit.
- **вбрання** clothes; *synonyms* (*n*) apparel, attire, clothing, dress, garb, garment, wardrobe, thing, gown, toggery, vesture, wear.
- вважати 1. consider; synonyms (v) believe, regard, think, cogitate, view, assume, calculate, conceive, contemplate, deliberate, reckon, reflect, analyze, consult, (n) study; antonym (v) ignore, 2. think; synonyms (v) consider, estimate, guess, hold, imagine, muse, ponder, suppose, conjecture, expect, meditate, reason, suspect, deem, envisage; antonym (v) forget, 3. believe; synonyms (v) accredit, understand, accept, hope, apprehend, trow, credit, fancy, infer, presume, speculate, bank, gather, (n) belief, trust; antonyms (v) disbelieve, distrust, 4. assume; synonyms (v) affect, adopt, appropriate, arrogate, feign, take, sham, simulate, usurp, feel, acquire, conclude, deduce, don, fake, 5. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, score, tale, description, explanation, history, narration, recital, story, tab, tally, bulletin, (v) report, **6**. count (рахувати); synonyms (n) number, calculation, computation, total, amount, (v) compute, account, cipher, matter, weigh, add, appreciate, enumerate, include, tell, 7. suppose; synonyms (v) divine, judge, count, figure, anticipate, hypothesize, opine, postulate, presuppose, say, put, plan, hypothesise, make, picture, 8. rate; synonyms (n) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, charge, (v) assess,

- evaluate, appraise, merit, rank, esteem, gauge, prize, deserve.
- **BBAWATHCH** rate; *synonyms* (*n*) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (*v*) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put.
- **введення** introduction; *synonyms* (*n*) induction, beginning, foreword, insertion, preface, presentation, entrance, initiation, preamble, preliminary, prelude, admission, entry, intro, opening; *antonyms* (*n*) finale, export, postscript.
- **ввезти** import; *synonyms* (*n*) consequence, meaning, sense, effect, connotation, implication, importance, moment, purport, significance, value, betoken, (*v*) matter, denote, imply; *antonym* (*v*) export.
- **BBECTU** introduce; *synonyms* (v) insert, interject, inject, acquaint, advance, enter, exhibit, implant, inaugurate, infuse, initiate, precede, present, instill, interpose; *antonym* (v) end.
- **ввійти** enter; *synonyms* (*v*) enlist, embark, enroll, book, chronicle, record, input, arrive, come, accede, attack, begin, board, enrol, insert; *antonyms* (*v*) leave, depart, delete, exit.
- ввічливий 1. civil; synonyms (adj) polite, courteous, civic, affable, gracious, mannerly, municipal, obliging, public, civilised, attentive, complaisant, considerate, courtly, domestic; antonyms (adj) rude, abrupt, 2. polite; synonyms (adj) cultured, civil, genteel, gentle, proper, refined, kind, friendly, chivalrous, civilized, cultivated, polished, good, gallant, elegant; antonyms (adj) impolite, bad-mannered, discourteous, boorish.
- **ввічливість** courtesy; *synonyms* (*n*) civility, propriety, chivalry, comity, decency, gallantry, politeness, attention, breeding, etiquette, affability, consideration, courteousness, graciousness, (*adj*) complaisance; *antonyms* (*n*) rudeness, discourtesy.
- **ввічливо** politely; *synonyms* (*adv*) courteously, kindly, respectfully, agreeably, courtly, gracefully, admiringly, amiably, assiduously, considerately, cooperatively, cordially, elegantly, genially, harmoniously; *antonyms* (*adv*) impolitely, brusquely, rudely, discourteously.
- **вводити** introduce; *synonyms* (*v*) insert, interject, inject, acquaint, advance, enter, exhibit, implant, inaugurate, infuse, initiate, precede, present, instill, interpose; *antonym* (*v*) end.
- **BB03HTH** import; *synonyms* (*n*) consequence, meaning, sense, effect, connotation, implication, importance, moment, purport, significance, value, betoken, (*v*) matter, denote, imply; *antonym* (*v*) export.
- **Bropi** above; *synonyms* (*prep*) on, past, surpassing, (*adv*) over, beyond, aloft, supra, up, more, overhead, (*adj*) preceding, former, upper, foregoing, previous; *antonym* (*prep*) below.
- **BFOPY** upstairs; *synonyms* (*adv*) over, (*n*) administration, authority, board, eternity, executive, floor, head, heaven, paradise, (*adj*) upstair; *antonym* (*adv*) downstairs.
- **ΒДаватися** succeed; *synonyms* (*v*) follow, replace, arrive, ensue, manage, prevail, prosper, supersede, supplant, do, achieve, flourish, displace, pursue, thrive; *antonyms* (*v*) fail, precede, lose.

- вдалий 1. successful; synonyms (adj) flourishing, fortunate, happy, effective, lucky, auspicious, effectual, fruitful, efficacious, prevalent, efficient, thriving, triumphant, profitable, (n) prosperous; antonyms (adj) unsuccessful, thwarted, dependent, failing, ineffective, sorrowful, 2. lucky; synonyms (adj) favorable, propitious, favourable, successful, advantageous, blessed, chance, good, providential, encouraging, promising, (n) favored; antonyms (adj) unlucky, hapless, ill-fated, unfortunate, 3. happy (щасливий); synonyms (adj) felicitous, contented, gay, buoyant, content, gleeful, gratified, blithe, bright, carefree, cheerful, cheery, convivial, delightful, festive; antonyms (adj) unhappy, sad, dejected, depressed, miserable, 4. prosperous; synonyms (adi) opulent, affluent, comfortable, easy, palmy, rich, well-off, booming, prospering, wealthy, golden, opportune, flush, moneyed, roaring; antonym (adj) poor.
- **Вдаряти** hit; *synonyms* (*v*) strike, attain, belt, blow, bump, collide, encounter, (*n*) knock, bang, smash, touch, chance, bash, beat, collision; *antonyms* (*n*) failure, flop.
- BAA4a 1. character; *synonyms* (n) kind, nature, note, part, quality, role, type, brand, constitution, description, disposition, eccentric, spirit, tone, standing, 2. temper; *synonyms* (n) mood, character, humor, condition, anger, irritation, (v) moderate, soften, harden, mitigate, modify, season, qualify, anneal, (*adj*) mollify; *antonyms* (v) intensify, upset, 3. nature; *synonyms* (n) class, essence, creation, breed, attribute, manner, mettle, temperament, genus, characteristic, complexion, cosmos, habit, personality, sort.
- вдвічі twice; *synonyms* (adv) double, doubly, bis, (adj) twenty.
- **ВДВОЄ** twice; *synonyms* (*adv*) double, doubly, bis, (*adj*)
- **ВДИВЛЯТИСЯ** gaze; *synonyms* (*n*) regard, look, aspect, esteem, (*v*) stare, gape, behold, see, face, pry, glance, glare, peer, view, watch.
- **ВДИХАННЯ** inspiration; *synonyms* (n) afflatus, infusion, breath, encouragement, idea, incentive, inhalation, revelation, genius, notion, aspiration, enthusiasm, impulse, (v) illumination, impression.
- вдова widow; *synonyms* (n) relict, (adj) additional, (v) hereave
- **ВДОВОЛЕННЯ** satisfaction; *synonyms* (*n*) pleasure, amends, complacency, content, enjoyment, joy, reparation, atonement, compensation, delight, discharge, ease, expiation, (*v*) contentment, gratification; *antonyms* (*n*) dissatisfaction, displeasure, aggravation, discontent.
- BAOMa home; *synonyms* (n) fireside, abode, domicile, house, base, building, dwelling, family, habitation, household, place, residence, shelter, asylum, (adj) domestic.
- **вдумливий** thoughtful; *synonyms* (*adj*) considerate, serious, careful, kind, solemn, attentive, courteous, discreet, heedful, pensive, sensible, grave, mindful, anxious, caring; *antonyms* (*adj*) inconsiderate, thoughtless, careless, heedless.
- **ВДЯГАННЯ** dressing; *synonyms* (*n*) bandage, bandaging, binding, fertilization, stuffing, scolding, castigation, coating, surfacing.

- **вдячний** grateful; *synonyms* (*adj*) thankful, agreeable, appreciative, beholden, indebted, obliged, pleasing, (*n*) welcome; *antonym* (*adj*) ungrateful.
- вдячність 1. gratitude; *synonyms* (*n*) appreciation, thanks, acknowledgment, feeling, anger, benediction, conviction, credit, recognition, resentment, tribute, honor, impression, merit, obligation; *antonym* (*n*) ingratitude, 2. acknowledgement; *synonyms* (*n*) acceptance, acclaim, preferment, realisation, realization.
- **ведення 1**. prosecution; *synonyms* (*n*) indictment, accusation, execution, arraignment, impeachment, lawsuit, litigation, suit, charge, pursuance, citation, (*v*) pursuit, **2**. transaction; *synonyms* (*n*) deal, business, dealing, dealings, proceeding, trade, concern, matter, action, affair, bargain, contract, negotiation, exchange, affairs; *antonym* (*n*) purchase.
- **ведмідь** bear; *synonyms* (v) carry, accept, abide, acquit, stand, take, afford, allow, apply, assume, behave, brook, comport, conduct, convey.
- Вежа tower; *synonyms* (n) column, castle, pinnacle, monument, (v) soar, ascend, rise, arise, loom, building, edifice, erection, fabric, hulk, (adj) pillar.
- **Be3TH 1**. carry; *synonyms* (ν) bear, bring, convey, conduct, take, acquit, behave, accept, comport, hold, pack, transport, load, assume, admit, **2**. transport; *synonyms* (n) rapture, transportation, (ν) transfer, transmit, carry, delight, enrapture, exile, banish, enchant, ferry, ravish, send, entrance, fetch; *antonyms* (ν) disenchant, remain.
- BEKCEJE 1. bill; synonyms (n) account, beak, advertisement, card, invoice, poster, receipt, act, banknote, check, measure, (v) placard, advertise, charge, list, 2. stiff; synonyms (adj) rigid, hard, difficult, formal, inflexible, firm, numb, rigorous, severe, solid, sturdy, (adv) tight, (n) stark, cadaver, corpse; antonyms (adj) relaxed, flexible, floppy, soft, supple, free, pliable.
- **BEKTOP** Vector; *synonyms* (n) direction, bearing, course, sender, transmitter, vehicle.
- BEJETEH Biant; synonyms (adj) colossal, gargantuan, gigantic, jumbo, elephantine, enormous, huge, immense, large, mammoth, vast, (n) monster, behemoth, colossus, ogre; antonyms (adj) small, tiny, miniature.
- **великий 1**. big; *synonyms* (adj) ample, major, heavy, important, significant, thick, sturdy, generous, adult, bad, burly, considerable, great, hefty, (adv) large; antonyms (adj) little, puny, (adv) small, (syn) tiny, 2. great; synonyms (adj) eminent, famous, gigantic, big, distinguished, extensive, extreme, grand, chief, capital, celebrated, dignified, fantastic, fine, glorious; antonyms (adj) awful, insignificant, mild, 3. large; synonyms (adj) broad, bulky, handsome, high, abundant, capacious, gross, huge, roomy, stout, fat, bountiful, colossal, commodious, comprehensive; antonym (adj) cramped, 4. vast; synonyms (adj) immense, spacious, boundless, enormous, immeasurable, wide, unlimited, gargantuan, giant, infinite, massive, monumental, unbounded, limitless, endless; antonyms (adj) limited, narrow, 5. gross; synonyms (adj) crass, coarse, boorish, common, crude, blunt, disgusting, brutal, earthy, entire, flagrant, fulsome, glaring, (v) foul, (n) aggregate; antonyms (adj) attractive, (v) net, 6. capital; synonyms (n) principal, city, stock, assets, cash, funds, means, money,

- paramount, prime, resources, top, wealth, (adj) main, primary.
- **Великодушний 1.** generous; *synonyms* (*adj*) ample, full, abundant, benevolent, copious, bountiful, charitable, fair, flush, kind, liberal, spacious, rich, benign, (*n*) free; *antonyms* (*adj*) stingy, meager, mean, measly, miserly, small, tightfisted, avaricious, greedy, ungenerous, **2.** liberal; *synonyms* (*adj*) generous, handsome, big, large, bounteous, broad, giving, tolerant, lavish, easy, bighearted, enlightened, freehanded, munificent, noble; *antonyms* (*adj*) strict, oppressive, totalitarian, intolerant, (*n*) conservative, **3.** noble; *synonyms* (*adj*) dignified, imposing, magnificent, glorious, distinguished, elevated, exalted, high, impressive, majestic, patrician, famous, (*n*) grand, excellent, (*v*) great; *antonyms* (*adj*) lower-class, selfish, shameful, humble, dishonorable, lowly.
- **Великодушність** 1. generosity; *synonyms* (*n*) charity, benevolence, bounty, liberality, bounteousness, favor, generousness, goodness, grace, hospitality, munificence, nobility, (*adj*) kindness, beneficence, largesse; *antonyms* (*n*) stinginess, greed, meanness, thrift, 2. nobility; *synonyms* (*n*) aristocracy, greatness, dignity, magnanimousness, noblesse, gentry, magnificence, rank, birth, elite, gallantry, (*adj*) grandeur, generosity, magnanimity; *antonym* (*n*) pettiness.
- **велич 1.** nobility; *synonyms* (*n*) aristocracy, greatness, dignity, magnanimousness, noblesse, gentry, magnificence, goodness, rank, birth, elite, gallantry, (*adj*) grandeur, generosity, magnanimity; *antonym* (*n*) pettiness, **2.** magnitude; *synonyms* (*n*) extent, bulk, consequence, amount, dimension, mass, proportion, size, weight, amplitude, degree, largeness, moment, intensity, enormity; *antonym* (*n*) triviality.
- **величавий** noble; *synonyms* (*adj*) dignified, imposing, magnificent, glorious, distinguished, elevated, exalted, generous, high, impressive, majestic, patrician, (*n*) grand, excellent, (*v*) great; *antonyms* (*adj*) lower-class, selfish, shameful, humble, dishonorable, lowly.
- **Величавість** majesty; *synonyms* (n) glory, grandeur, dignity, loftiness, splendor, greatness, magnificence, nobility, stateliness, king, royalty, highness, pomp, emperor, (adi) solemnity.
- величезний 1. enormous; synonyms (adj) big, colossal, huge, immense, vast, excessive, exorbitant, great, large, prodigious, tremendous, stupendous, gargantuan, giant, gigantic; antonyms (adj) minute, small, tiny, insignificant, miniature, 2, immense; synonyms (adi) enormous, immeasurable, boundless, infinite, endless, extensive, extreme, incalculable, massive, monumental, untold, whopping, broad, super, jumbo, 3. huge; synonyms (adj) elephantine, ample, considerable, monstrous, heavy, bulky, cavernous, cosmic, hefty, mighty, mountainous, roomy, substantial, terrific, wide, 4. great; synonyms (adj) eminent, famous, distinguished, grand, chief, capital, celebrated, dignified, fantastic, fine, glorious, good, spacious, voluminous, stunning; antonyms (adj) awful, mild, 5. tremendous; synonyms (adj) dreadful, marvelous, wonderful, formidable, fearful, terrible, rattling, howling, awesome, brilliant, devastating, excellent, frightful, horrible, horrid, 6. formidable; synonyms (adj) arduous,

- appalling, grim, difficult, forbidding, dread, onerous, redoubtable, stiff, tough, herculean, rugged, serious, hard, laborious, 7. overwhelming; *synonyms* (adj) overpowering, irresistible, insurmountable, crushing, amazing, astounding, breathtaking, consuming, impossible, intense, (n) undefeatable; *antonym* (adj) imperceptible.
- **Величина 1**. magnitude; *synonyms* (n) extent, bulk, consequence, amount, dimension, mass, proportion, size, weight, amplitude, greatness, degree, largeness, moment, intensity; *antonym* (n) triviality, **2**. dimension; *synonyms* (n) breadth, magnitude, attribute, length, range, dimensions, bigness, stretch, measure, measurement, balance, **3**. quantity; *synonyms* (n) multitude, quantum, sum, total, portion, heap, capacity, deal, value, volume, piece, body, dose, part, percentage.
- величний 1. awful; synonyms (adj) abominable, appalling, awesome, dreadful, fearful, terrible, atrocious, bad, horrible, nasty, alarming, amazing, deplorable, detestable, (adv) beastly; antonyms (adj) excellent, great, marvelous, wonderful, lovely, nice, pleasant, 2. proud; synonyms (adj) arrogant, dignified, disdainful, haughty, lofty, exalted, conceited, egotistical, gallant, lordly, majestic, overbearing, pompous, imperious, elated; antonyms (adj) humble, modest, ashamed, embarrassed, 3. noble; synonyms (adj) imposing, magnificent, glorious, distinguished, elevated, generous, high, impressive, patrician, famous, aristocratic, elegant, eminent, (n) grand, aristocrat; antonyms (adj) lowerclass, selfish, shameful, dishonorable, lowly.
- **BEJIUHICTL** majesty; *synonyms* (n) glory, grandeur, dignity, loftiness, splendor, greatness, magnificence, nobility, stateliness, king, royalty, highness, pomp, emperor, (*adj*) solemnity.
- **BEJITH** Will; *synonyms* (v) bequeath, devise, wish, leave, (n) volition, command, desire, inclination, determination, pleasure, resolve, intent, mind, courage, liking.
- **Велосипед 1.** bicycle; *synonyms* (*n*) machine, vehicle, coach, rack, (*v*) bike, wheel, cycle, pedal, motorcycle, drive, roll, **2**. cycle; *synonyms* (*n*) bicycle, circle, round, ring, sequence, circuit, period, turn, bout, beat, run, age, interval, orbit, revolution, **3**. mount; *synonyms* (*v*) ascend, rise, climb, board, arise, advance, jump, bestride, grow, increase, ride, scale, (*n*) hill, frame, mountain; *antonyms* (*v*) descend, drop, (*n*) vallev.
- **BeHa** Vein; *synonyms* (*n*) streak, vena, nervure, strain, mine, temper, stripe, tone, cast, style, fund, funicle, (*adj*) humor, mood, strip.
- **вентилятор** fan; *synonyms* (*n*) admirer, buff, devotee, enthusiast, addict, adherent, afficionado, fiend, follower, advocate, disciple, (*v*) air, winnow, refresh, blow; *antonym* (*n*) detractor.
- **Вентиляція** ventilation; *synonyms* (*n*) airing, exploitation, discussion, deliberation, air, breathing, circulation, conference, conversation, disclosure, dissemination, publication, rap, respiration, riffling.
- **веранда** porch; *synonyms* (*n*) lobby, hall, veranda, vestibule, balcony, door, entrance, portico, inlet, doorway, patio, portal, chops, conservatory, lips.

- **вербувати** recruit; *synonyms* (*v*) draft, enlist, raise, enrol, enter, levy, retrieve, enroll, recover, (*n*) novice, beginner, conscript, draftee, freshman, refresh.
- **вердикт** verdict; *synonyms* (*n*) finding, decision, judgment, conclusion, determination, decree, resolution, ruling, sentence, choice.
- **вередливий** naughty; *synonyms* (*adj*) bad, blue, impish, mischievous, improper, disobedient, insubordinate, wicked, evil, lewd, dark, defiant, racy, rebellious, risque; *antonyms* (*adj*) well-behaved, good.
- Bepec 1. heath; synonyms (n) heather, heathland, prairie, steppe, waste, wild, basin, desert, plain, veldt, grig, pampas, savanna, 2. heather; synonyms (n) heath, ling, broom, burbot, cusk, eelpout, field, grassplat, green, greensward, lawn, mead, meadow, park, (adj) gray.
- **Bepcia** Version; *synonyms* (n) reading, translation, construction, interpretation, rendering, rendition, variation, account, description, variant, lection, report, story, explanation, paraphrase.
- **Bepctaκ** bench; *synonyms* (*n*) settle, chair, court, terrace, workbench, bank, bar, judicatory, board, couch, form, judiciary, table, tribunal.
- **Bepctat** machine; *synonyms* (n) instrument, apparatus, device, implement, car, contrivance, auto, automobile, gadget, organization, tool, automaton, computer, mechanism, motorcar.
- **Вертати** return; *synonyms* (*n*) yield, pay, recompense, refund, restitution, proceeds, income, (*v*) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer; *antonyms* (*n*) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (*v*) keep.
- **BEPTATUCS** return; *synonyms* (*n*) yield, pay, recompense, refund, restitution, proceeds, income, (*v*) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer; *antonyms* (*n*) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (*v*) keep.
- **Вертикальний 1.** vertical; *synonyms* (*adi*) upright, perpendicular, straight, erect, sheer, standing, plumb, unbowed; *antonyms* (*adj*) horizontal, prone, **2.** upright; *synonyms* (*adj*) vertical, fair, good, just, righteous, honest, honorable, right, true, vitruous, pure, clean, moral, noble, (*n*) column; *antonyms* (*adv*) horizontally, (*adj*) disreputable, upturned, degenerate, hanging, unwholesome.
- **BEPTITH** roll; *synonyms* (*n*) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (*v*) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow.
- **BEPTITICS** roll; *synonyms* (*n*) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (*v*) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow.
- **BEPTOJIT** helicopter; *synonyms* (*n*) chopper, whirlybird, eggbeater, airliner, airplane, chop, cleaver, eggwhisk, jet, plane, pearly.
- Bepx top; synonyms (adj) maximum, (n) crown, peak, acme, apex, crest, cover, height, pinnacle, summit, (v) best, cap, exceed, head, outdo; antonyms (adj) worst, (n) bottom, base, nadir.
- **верхівка** top; *synonyms* (*adj*) maximum, (*n*) crown, peak, acme, apex, crest, cover, height, pinnacle, summit, (*v*) best, cap, exceed, head, outdo; *antonyms* (*adj*) worst, (*n*) bottom, base, nadir.

- **BepxiB'я** source (джерело); *synonyms* (n) origin, root, cause, commencement, beginning, reason, head, parent, basis, derivation, germ, headspring, original, origination, reference
- верхній 1. upper; synonyms (adj) superior, higher, top, overhead, over, highest, (n) amphetamine, speed, stimulant; antonym (adj) inferior, 2. top; synonyms (adj) maximum, (n) crown, peak, acme, apex, crest, cover, height, pinnacle, summit, (v) best, cap, exceed, head, outdo; antonyms (adj) worst, (n) bottom, base, nadir, 3. superior; synonyms (adj) senior, dominant, better, exceptional, predominant, elder, great, arrogant, chief, eminent, excellent, high, lofty, proud, select; antonyms (adj) humble, worse, poor, (n) subordinate, subscript.
- верховний 1. supreme; synonyms (adj) dominant, maximum, paramount, head, chief, sovereign, consummate, extreme, preeminent, principal, superlative, uppermost, main, prime, (n) utmost; antonym (adj) minor, 2. high (високий); synonyms (adj) eminent, elevated, great, expensive, distinguished, exalted, lofty, tall, heavy, arrogant, costly, dear, (v) bad, fusty, rancid; antonyms (adj) deep, short, sober, (n) low, 3. paramount; synonyms (adj) overriding, top, foremost, supreme, topmost, capital, cardinal, crowning, leading, predominant, master, grand, especial, central, (v) greatest.
- **вершина 1.** top; *synonyms* (*adj*) maximum, (*n*) crown, peak, acme, apex, crest, cover, height, pinnacle, summit, (*v*) best, cap, exceed, head, outdo; *antonyms* (*adj*) worst, (*n*) bottom, base, nadir, **2**. summit; *synonyms* (*n*) point, top, climax, tip, culmination, vertex, zenith, prime, heyday, altitude, elevation, meeting.
- **Вершки** cream; *synonyms* (*n*) pick, ointment, prime, balm, top, liniment, elite, fat, salve, unguent, (*adj*) flower, milk, (*v*) best, skim, ream.
- **вершник** rider; *synonyms* (n) horseman, appendix, equestrian, passenger, codicil, supplement, clause, provision, addition, condition, horse, proviso.
- веселий 1. gay; synonyms (adj) cheerful, bright, convivial, festive, gaudy, airy, blithe, brave, buoyant, cheery, festal, flashy, frolicsome, (n) homosexual, gallant, 2. happy (щасливий); synonyms (adj) fortunate, felicitous, contented, gay, content, gleeful, gratified, carefree, delightful, favorable, glad, lucky, pleasant, (n) auspicious, blessed; antonyms (adj) unhappy, sad, dejected, depressed, miserable, sorrowful, 3. cheerful; synonyms (adj) breezy, merry, optimistic, animated, brisk, chipper, comfortable, happy, hopeful, jolly, joyful, lighthearted, lively, sunny, upbeat; antonyms (adj) gloomy, depressing, grim, hopeless, morose, somber, unwelcoming, bleak, cheerless, dull, forlorn, melancholy, 4. sunny; synonyms (adj) clear, brilliant, fair, radiant, shining, shiny, jovial, beaming, fine, sunlit, burnished, hilarious, jocund, mirthful, (v) glossy; antonyms (adj) dark, overcast.
- **весілля 1.** wedding; *synonyms* (*n*) marriage, matrimony, nuptial, nuptials, wedlock, (*adj*) bridal, matrimonial; *antonym* (*n*) divorce, **2.** marriage; *synonyms* (*n*) wedding, espousal, union, alliance, coupling, bond, (*v*) match; *antonym* (*n*) separation.

- **весільний** wedding; *synonyms* (n) marriage, matrimony, nuptial, nuptials, wedlock, (*adj*) bridal, matrimonial; *antonym* (n) divorce.
- **Веслування** row; *synonyms* (n) altercation, line, file, rank, squabble, wrangle, clash, dispute, (v) quarrel, brawl, fight, argue, bicker, order, (adj) fracas; antonyms (n) agreement, (v) agree.
- **веслувати** row; *synonyms* (*n*) altercation, line, file, rank, squabble, wrangle, clash, dispute, (*v*) quarrel, brawl, fight, argue, bicker, order, (*adj*) fracas; *antonyms* (*n*) agreement, (*v*) agree.
- **BecHa 1.** spring; *synonyms* (n) jump, leap, bound, fountain, skip, source, dance, rise, (v) hop, caper, bounce, dive, originate, recoil, (adj) elastic, **2.** prime; *synonyms* (adj) main, chief, first, head, early, essential, fundamental, paramount, primary, excellent, exquisite, (n) best, cardinal, flower, (v) ground; *antonym* (adj) minor.
- **вестерн** western; *synonyms* (*adj*) westerly, occidental, descending, falling, occasive, occiduous, ponent, westbound.
- **вести 1**. lead (свинець); *synonyms* (*v*) head, guide, conduct, contribute, direct, chair, conduce, control, go, govern, bring, convey, give, (*n*) clue, advantage; *antonym* (*v*) follow, **2**. conduct; *synonyms* (*n*) behavior, administration, manage, demeanor, lead, performance, (*v*) act, administer, carriage, acquit, bearing, carry, comport, show, accompany.
- Becь 1. all; synonyms (adv) whole, purely, altogether, entirely, totally, wholly, apiece, (adj) universal, each, every, gross, complete, alone, (n) aggregate, (det) any; antonyms (pron) none, (det) some, 2. whole; synonyms (adj) entire, total, all, integral, full, healthy, intact, well, unbroken, undivided, unabridged, (n) sum, sound, hale, unit; antonyms (adj) incomplete, broken, imperfect, partial, (n) part, 3. total; synonyms (adj) absolute, downright, general, outright, overall, sheer, thorough, unconditional, (n) amount, tally, entirety, (v) count, number, figure, add; antonym (adj) qualified, 4. entire; synonyms (adj) perfect, utter, clean, mere, radical, dead, livelong, undiminished, implicit, main, finished, good, plenary, (n) stallion, stark.
- **Betepah** Vet; *synonyms* (n) veteran, veterinarian, veterinary, (v) inspect, examine, vaquero.
- **ветеринар** Vet; *synonyms* (*n*) veteran, veterinarian, veterinary, (*v*) inspect, examine, vaquero.
- **ΒΕΨΕΡЯ** supper; *synonyms* (*n*) dinner, meal, tea, lunch, banquet, breakfast, brunch, feast, mealtime, reception, siesta, (*v*) bever, dejeuner, whet, tiffin.
- **Вечеряти** supper; *synonyms* (*n*) dinner, meal, tea, lunch, banquet, breakfast, brunch, feast, mealtime, reception, siesta, (*v*) bever, dejeuner, whet, tiffin.
- **Be4ip 1**. evening; *synonyms* (n) even, dusk, dark, eve, eventide, nightfall, sunset, twilight, night, sundown; *antonyms* (n) dawn, daybreak, **2**. night; *synonyms* (n) evening, darkness, nighttime, (*adj*) nocturnal; *antonyms* (n) day, light.
- **вечірка 1**. evening (вечір); *synonyms* (n) even, dusk, dark, eve, eventide, nightfall, sunset, twilight, night, sundown; *antonyms* (n) dawn, daybreak, **2**. party;

- **synonyms** (n) gang, band, company, assembly, association, crew, gathering, group, affair, bevy, celebration, crowd, do, faction, meeting, **3**. social; **synonyms** (adj) gregarious, national, companionable, friendly, public, common, neighborly, affable, communicative, convivial, societal, (n) sociable, mixer, party, society.
- **вечірній** night; *synonyms* (n) dark, evening, dusk, darkness, nighttime, twilight, (*adj*) nocturnal; *antonyms* (n) day, light.
- **Bxe** already; *synonyms* (*adv*) beforehand, previously, before, formerly, once, earlier, finally, (*adj*) erewhile, present.
- **вживання 1**. application; *synonyms* (*n*) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, demand, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, call, claim, **2**. usage; *synonyms* (*n*) habit, practice, employment, method, convention, consuetude, treatment, usance, wont, ritual, system, tradition, (*v*) application, manner, (*adj*) custom, **3**. use; *synonyms* (*n*) benefit, function, (*v*) employ, expend, profit, advantage, exploit, occupy, operate, spend, exert, need, enjoy, (*adj*) usage, service; *antonym* (*v*) conserve.
- **вживати 1**. employ; *synonyms* (*v*) apply, use, consume, engage, exercise, exploit, hire, wield, busy, exert, occupy, ply, retain, (*n*) employment, service; *antonyms* (*v*) fire, dismiss, **2**. apply; *synonyms* (*v*) dedicate, devote, employ, ask, resort, utilize, lay, appeal, address, administer, consecrate, daub, enforce, harness, (*n*) give.
- B3aFaлi generally, *synonyms* (*adv*) altogether, commonly, frequently, broadly, chiefly, usually, approximately, largely, mainly, mostly, principally, completely, customarily, habitually, normally; *antonyms* (*adv*) narrowly, rarely, specifically.
- **взаємний** mutual; *synonyms* (*adj*) reciprocal, common, communal, joint, bilateral, collective, public, alternate, concerted, shared, united, commutual, interchangeable; *antonyms* (*adj*) individual, unilateral, one-sided, private.
- **B3acMHo** mutually; *synonyms* (*adv*) reciprocally, together, jointly, agreeably, both, equally, interchangeably, inversely, collectively, commonly, conjointly, cooperatively.
- B3acMoдiя interaction; synonyms (n) interplay, contact, correlation, communication, mutuality, affairs, associations, dealings, interworking, relations, relationships, association, consultation, interdependence, relationship.
- взаємозалежний organic; synonyms (adj) constitutional, natural, constitutive, fundamental, constituent, inherent, structural, whole, raw; antonym (adj) refined.
- **взаєморозуміння** sympathy; *synonyms* (*n*) compassion, pity, benevolence, commiseration, feeling, humanity, kindness, mercy, rapport, understanding, agreement, clemency, comfort, affection, (*adj*) charity; *antonyms* (*n*) indifference, cruelty.
- вздовж 1. aboard; synonyms (prep) athwart, (adv) afloat, alongside, afield, everywhere, here, onboard, there, where, (adj) boarded, consigned, embarked, loaded, topside, traveling, 2. along; synonyms (adv) ahead,

- forward, lengthwise, on, onward, endlong, (prep) beside, (prf) by; antonym (adv) across.
- **взірець 1.** specimen; *synonyms* (*n*) exemplar, sample, example, instance, copy, pattern, person, illustration, model, representative, type, **2**. sample; *synonyms* (*n*) specimen, assay, case, design, piece, precedent, appetizer, (*v*) taste, try, attempt, essay, prove, sip, (*adj*) test, trial.
- взірцевий classic; *synonyms* (*adj*) classical, model, archetypal, exemplary, ideal, typical, representative, traditional, archaic, heroic, (*n*) masterpiece; *antonym* (*n*) second-rate.
- **B39TH** take; *synonyms* (v) admit, get, hold, adopt, bear, carry, catch, clutch, obtain, return, borrow, pick, (n) seize, (phr) accept, receive; *antonyms* (v) give, refuse, abstain, add. lose.
- **B39TT9** taking; *synonyms* (*adj*) fetching, infectious, attractive, contagious, winning, catching, (*n*) capture, acceptance, acharnement, receipt.
- Bu6auatu 1. excuse; synonyms (n) apology, alibi, evasion, palliate, pretext, color, (v) pardon, absolve, acquit, condone, exculpate, forgive, justify, apologise, apologize; antonym (v) punish, 2. pardon; synonyms (n) amnesty, forgiveness, grace, remission, reprieve, (v) excuse, exonerate, spare, absolution, acquittal, discharge, remit, pity, release, (adj) clear; antonym (v) blame
- **вибачення 1**. apology; *synonyms* (*n*) excuse, plea, amends, defense, justification, regret, reason, alibi, explanation, vindication, acknowledgment, apologia, reparation, **2**. excuse; *synonyms* (*n*) apology, evasion, palliate, pretext, color, (*v*) pardon, absolve, acquit, condone, exculpate, forgive, justify, apologise, apologize, discharge; *antonym* (*v*) punish.
- Buбачити 1. excuse; synonyms (n) apology, alibi, evasion, palliate, pretext, color, (v) pardon, absolve, acquit, condone, exculpate, forgive, justify, apologise, apologize; antonym (v) punish, 2. pardon; synonyms (n) amnesty, forgiveness, grace, remission, reprieve, (v) excuse, exonerate, spare, absolution, acquittal, discharge, remit, pity, release, (adj) clear; antonym (v) blame.
- вибирати 1. choose; synonyms (v) adopt, elect, pick, prefer, select, appoint, take, assign, decide, desire, determine, draw, excerpt, like, vote; antonyms (v) reject, refuse, 2. select; synonyms (v) extract, choose, excellent, opt, cull, nominate, gather, (adj) choice, exclusive, chosen, best, rare, selective, elite, exquisite, 3. pick; synonyms (v) clean, harvest, break, collect, nibble, peck, pluck, (n) alternative, option, selection, pickax, pickaxe, (adj) cream, mattock, flower, 4. extract; synonyms (n) essence, juice, quotation, quote, citation, (v) abstract, derive, educe, elicit, distill, express, get, extort, distil, mine, 5. adopt; synonyms (v) accept, admit, affiliate, assume, borrow, espouse, pass, acquire, embrace, follow, imitate, naturalize, ratify, undertake, use.
- вибір 1. choice; synonyms (n) vote, alternative, favorite, option, preference, selection, election, pick, pleasure, volition, assortment, (adj) best, excellent, select, (v) chosen; antonym (adj) inferior, 2. selection; synonyms

- (n) choice, extract, quotation, range, collection, appointment, excerpt, voting, adoption, picking, decision, indication, particularization, quote, stock, 3. adoption; synonyms (n) acceptance, espousal, assumption, borrowing, cooptation, enactment, maintenance, affiliation, (adj) conversion, inspiration, justification, regeneration, salvation, sanctification, (v) passage, 4. alternative; synonyms (adj) alternate, alternating, variant, (n) substitute, variation, 5. pick; synonyms (v) clean, gather, harvest, opt, break, choose, collect, cull, draw, nibble, peck, (n) elite, (adj) cream, mattock, flower, 6. option; synonyms (n) possibility, refusal, opening, will, likelihood, opportunity, wish, call, put; antonyms (n) essential, necessity, obligation.
- виборець constituent; synonyms (adj) integral, (n) component, ingredient, element, factor, part, division, elector, item, member, piece, agent; antonyms (n) aggregate, composite, whole.
- **вибори** election; *synonyms* (*n*) ballot, choice, option, poll, preference, selection, volition, vote, doom.
- Βυδορμί constituency; synonyms (n) ward, electorate, clientele, district, area, borough, county, expanse, province, quarter, region, section, state, city, electors.
- **виборчий** electoral; *synonyms* (*adj*) elective, constituent, electorial, selecting.
- **вибраний** chosen; *synonyms* (v) designate, (adj) picked, preferred, select, favored, (n) elect.
- Buбyx 1. explosion; synonyms (n) burst, blast, boom, detonation, eruption, bang, fulmination, outbreak, outburst, rush, (v) discharge, salvo, firing, (adj) paroxysm, blow, 2. burst; synonyms (v) break, crack, rupture, belch, abound, erupt, open, (n) flash, explosion, (adj) split, explode, detonate, flare, splinter, broken; antonym (v) implode, 3. blast; synonyms (n) slam, gust, clap, noise, whiff, wind, beep, (v) attack, blare, blight, bomb, roar, smash, bombard, shell, 4. outbreak; synonyms (n) epidemic, onset, mutiny, flood, rash, rebellion, revolt, spate, spell, storm, uprising, upsurge, emeute, plague.
- вибухнути burst; *synonyms* (v) break, crack, blast, rupture, belch, abound, erupt, open, (n) flash, explosion, (adj) split, explode, detonate, flare, splinter; antonym (v) implode.
- **вибуховий** explosive; *synonyms* (*adj*) volatile, combustible, unstable, fickle, dangerous, hazardous, precarious, unsafe, excitable, (*n*) bomb, mine, missile, firecracker, ammunition, (*v*) convulsive; *antonym* (*adj*) stable
- **виважений** measured; *synonyms* (*adj*) careful, deliberate, moderate, calculated, reasonable, temperate, regular, leisurely, metrical, sober, cool, slow.
- BUBAHTAЖУВАТИ discharge; *synonyms* (n) release, dismissal, drain, (v) acquit, clear, absolve, complete, deliver, eject, cashier, burst, blast, bounce, detonate, disgorge; *antonyms* (v) capture, hire.
- **вивезення** export; *synonyms* (*n*) exportation, business, buying, exchange, retail, (*v*) import, trade, smuggle, market, port, sell, ship, consign, dump, freight.
- **Bubeptatucs** shift; *synonyms* (n) interchange, turn, move, switch, conversion, (v) change, exchange, remove,

- quibble, alter, budge, convert, displace, transfer, fluctuate
- **ΒυΒΙΙΙΙΥΒΑΤΙ** post; *synonyms* (n) place, function, office, position, pillar, stake, attitude, berth, column, job, (ν) mail, locate, base, enter, lay.
- **ВИВОДИТИ** breed; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, race, variety, ancestry, sort, order, class, genus, (*v*) engender, beget, multiply, bear, brood, cause, cultivate.
- **BUBO3HTU** export; *synonyms* (*n*) exportation, business, buying, exchange, retail, (*v*) import, trade, smuggle, market, port, sell, ship, consign, dump, freight.
- **BHBOPIT** back; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, backward, (*n*) rear, (*adj*) assist, (*v*) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) face, (*v*) front, oppose, advance.
- **ВИВЧАННЯ** learning; *synonyms* (*n*) erudition, acquisition, education, enlightenment, culture, scholarship, wisdom, acquirement, edification, letter, literature, lore, reading, (*v*) knowledge, instruction.
- **ΒΗΒ ΨΑΤΗ 1**. study; *synonyms* (n) survey, consideration, investigation, learning, (ν) consider, examine, review, learn, research, check, analyze, contemplate, inquire, investigate, meditate, **2**. learn; *synonyms* (ν) discover, get, know, find, ascertain, have, hear, determine, acquire, con, perceive, study, tell, understand, gather, **3**. observe; *synonyms* (ν) celebrate, comment, notice, commemorate, mind, guard, behold, follow, heed, keep, look, mark, mention, note, see; *antonyms* (ν) ignore, feel
- **ВИВЧЕННЯ** study; *synonyms* (*n*) survey, consideration, investigation, learning, (*v*) consider, examine, review, learn, research, check, analyze, contemplate, inquire, investigate, meditate.
- **ВИВЧИТИ 1**. learn; *synonyms* (*v*) discover, get, know, find, ascertain, have, hear, determine, acquire, con, perceive, study, tell, understand, gather, **2**. study; *synonyms* (*n*) survey, consideration, investigation, learning, (*v*) consider, examine, review, learn, research, check, analyze, contemplate, inquire, investigate, meditate.
- **BHFAJKA 1.** fiction; *synonyms* (n) fabrication, fable, falsehood, invention, lie, story, falsity, figment, novel, romance, sham, deceit, fib, forgery, legend; *antonym* (n) truth, **2.** invention; *synonyms* (n) contrivance, conception, creation, fiction, imagination, discovery, artifice, design, device, excogitation, innovation, creativity, fantasy, idea, breakthrough.
- **BHFAJYBATH 1.** coin; *synonyms* (*n*) cash, money, specie, currency, piece, (*v*) forge, invent, mint, originate, create, strike, cast, devise, fabricate, weave, **2.** romance; *synonyms* (*n*) fiction, novel, story, intrigue, affair, fable, romanticism, tale, vagary, (*v*) court, flirt, exaggerate, woo, coquet, coquette.
- BHFAHSTH 1. exile; synonyms (n) banishment, deportation, expulsion, deportee, outcast, refugee, emigrant, expatriation, (v) banish, expatriate, deport, expel, eject, proscribe, (adj) exclude; antonym (v) repatriate, 2. chase; synonyms (n) game, search, quest, (v) hunt, pursue, follow, stalk, track, trail, chamfer, pursuit, race, seek, evict, course.

- **вигідний 1**. beneficial; *synonyms* (*adj*) advantageous, favorable, fruitful, handy, profitable, useful, expedient, gainful, good, healthy, productive, propitious, salutary, serviceable, wholesome; *antonyms* (*adj*) useless, disadvantageous, harmful, **2**. lucrative; *synonyms* (*adj*) fat, moneymaking, remunerative, beneficial, helpful, worthwhile, (*v*) paying; *antonym* (*adj*) unprofitable, **3**. profitable; *synonyms* (*adj*) lucrative, desirable, economic, valuable, edifying, fertile, commercial, rewarding, usable; *antonym* (*adj*) dependent.
- **ВИГЛЯД 1.** aspect; *synonyms* (*n*) appearance, look, surface, bearing, expression, manner, prospect, side, view, air, angle, face, facet, feature, quality, **2.** view; *synonyms* (*n*) sight, judgment, opinion, scene, idea, outlook, thought, aspect, notion, position, (*v*) regard, observe, see, consider, eye.
- **виглядати** look; *synonyms* (*v*) seem, appear, expect, figure, attend, (*n*) face, gaze, appearance, aspect, air, countenance, expression, glance, guise, view.
- вигнання exile; synonyms (n) banishment, deportation, expulsion, deportee, outcast, refugee, emigrant, expatriation, (v) banish, expatriate, deport, expel, eject, proscribe, (adj) exclude; antonym (v) repatriate.
- вигода 1. profit; synonyms (n) gain, benefit, account, good, produce, earnings, increase, dividend, interest, (v) net, advance, avail, earn, help, (adj) advantage; antonym (v) lose, 2. advantage; synonyms (n) behalf, privilege, profit, expediency, lead, preponderance, virtue, perk, boot, convenience, leverage, preference, reward, service, superiority; antonyms (n) drawback, detriment, difficulty, (v) disadvantage, 3. utility; synonyms (n) use, usefulness, value, purpose, helpfulness, effectiveness, function, serviceableness, worth, (adj) functional, 4. benefit; synonyms (n) assistance, favor, welfare, allowance, asset, blessing, bonus, boon, perquisite, utility, (v) aid, assist, pay, serve, further; antonyms (n) loss, (v) harm, 5. convenience; synonyms (n) contrivance, accommodation, opportunity, appliance. comfort, fitness, leisure, occasion, amenity, easement, gadget, suitability, contraption, patness; antonym (n) inconvenience, 6. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, regard, score, tale, description, explanation. history, narration, reason, recital, story, tab, (v) report.
- **BUFO,OBYBATU** nurse; *synonyms* (*n*) nurture, doctor, amah, (*v*) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- **виготовлений** made; *synonyms* (*adj*) finished, built, ready, constructed, formed, prepared, synthetic, bound, complete, completed, ended, fictitious, rabid, through.
- **ВИГОТОВЛЕННЯ** production; *synonyms* (*n*) output, generation, product, manufacturing, performance, creation, formation, produce, staging, fabrication, fruit, manufacture, origination, presentation, (*v*) exhibition.
- **ВИГОТОВЛЮВАЧ** manufacturer; *synonyms* (*n*) maker, builder, artificer, creator, shaper, producer, artist.
- **ΒΗΓΡΑΒΑΤΗ** Win; *synonyms* (*v*) acquire, gain, get, attain, obtain, conquer, achieve, earn, prevail, secure, take, succeed, carry, vanquish, (*n*) triumph; *antonyms* (*v*) lose, (*n*) defeat.
- **виграти** Win; *synonyms* (v) acquire, gain, get, attain, obtain, conquer, achieve, earn, prevail, secure, take,

- succeed, carry, vanquish, (n) triumph; *antonyms* (v) lose, (n) defeat.
- BHFPAIII 1. Winning; synonyms (adj) attractive, triumphant, victorious, charming, engaging, pleasing, enchanting, lovely, captivating, fetching, taking, successful, appealing, inviting, amiable; antonym (adv) losing, 2. Win; synonyms (v) acquire, gain, get, attain, obtain, conquer, achieve, earn, prevail, secure, take, succeed, carry, vanquish, (n) triumph; antonyms (v) lose, (n) defeat, 3. gain; synonyms (v) benefit, derive, catch, win, advance, make, reach, find, accomplish, come, (n) profit, earnings, acquisition, advantage, addition; antonym (n) loss, 4. prize; synonyms (n) award, plunder, treasure, booty, premium, loot, price, trophy, (v) appreciate, esteem, cherish, honor, value, admire, pry.
- **вид 1**. view; synonyms (n) look, sight, judgment, opinion, scene, idea, outlook, prospect, thought, aspect, (v) regard, observe, see, consider, eye, 2. species; svnonvms (n) kind, sort, breed, class, genus, appearance, form, character, type, variety, (adj) nature, description, race, manner, fashion, 3. kind; synonyms (n) helpful, benign, brand, gentle, benevolent, (adj) friendly, generous, good, humane, affectionate, charitable, considerate, genial, hospitable, kindly; antonyms (adi) unkind, callous, cruel, hardhearted, mean, merciless, nasty, spiteful, uncaring, upsetting, disagreeable, unfeeling, 4. outlook; synonyms (n) expectation, lookout, anticipation, hope, expectancy, angle, attitude, future, perspective, position, slant, view, viewpoint, vision, (v) landscape, 5. sort; synonyms (n) assortment, rank, pattern, order, organize, range, figure, grade, (v) group, arrange, classify, divide, assort, pigeonhole, screen, **6**. sight (3ip); synonyms (n) glimpse, show, eyesight, spectacle, glance, (v) aim, spot, descry, discern, perceive, behold, detect, find, notice, (adi) eyesore, 7. aspect; synonyms (n) surface, bearing, expression, side, air, face, facet, feature, quality, respect, vista, shape, attribute, demeanor, hue, 8, description; synonyms (n) account, delineation, depiction, explanation, picture, definition, narration, portrayal, recital, report, representation, statement, story, portrait, clarification, 9. perspective; synonyms (n) panorama, horizon, standpoint, stance, stand, 10. type; synonyms (n) category, stamp, emblem, font, print, style, mark, prototype, case, cast, device, sign, species, original, (adj) model
- видавати 1. publish; synonyms (v) declare, announce, disclose, circulate, divulge, issue, proclaim, communicate, notify, advertise, broadcast, print, promulgate, spread, expose, 2. issue; synonyms (n) aftermath, egress, consequence, effect, event, exit, progeny, result, (v) flow, emanate, arise, emerge, release, discharge, gush.
- **видаватися** appear; *synonyms* (*v*) occur, rise, seem, sound, emerge, show, break, arise, arrive, begin, feel, happen, look, surface, (*n*) come; *antonyms* (*v*) disappear, vanish
- **видавець 1**. publisher; *synonyms* (*n*) newspaper, paper, bookseller, press, father, **2**. editor; *synonyms* (*n*) redactor, writer, editioner, journalist.

- **видавлювати** press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- **видавничий** publishing; *synonyms* (*n*) issue, publication, announcement, arraignment, denunciation, dissemination, proclamation.
- видання 1. edition; synonyms (n) version, print, circulation, copy, issue, number, adaptation, book, rendering, translation, variation, compilation, run, anthology, collection, 2. publication; synonyms (n) announcement, newspaper, periodical, proclamation, journal, declaration, disclosure, promulgation, volume, circular, magazine, issuance, bulletin, dissemination, handbook, 3. issue; synonyms (n) aftermath, egress, consequence, effect, event, exit, progeny, result, (v) flow, emanate, arise, emerge, release, discharge, gush.
- видатний 1. prominent; synonyms (adj) eminent, notable, noted, great, celebrated, distinguished, famous, illustrious, leading, noticeable, obvious, outstanding, salient, striking, (v) conspicuous; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, unknown, minor, 2. notable; synonyms (adj) extraordinary, memorable, remarkable, renowned, famed, important, marked, noteworthy, prominent, signal, significant, worthy, (n) celebrity, luminary, notability; antonyms (adj) insignificant, ordinary, 3. outstanding; synonyms (adj) due, owing, excellent, exceptional, unpaid, major, brilliant, magnificent, overdue, splendid, superb, superlative, unusual, wonderful, preeminent; antonyms (adj) paid, inferior, 4. remarkable; synonyms (adj) odd, phenomenal, curious, rare, singular, uncommon, funny, peculiar, queer, special, impressive, marvelous, particular, strange, stunning; antonym (adj) unremarkable, 5. distinguished; synonyms (adj) dignified, reputable, high, noble, superior, considerable, distinct, ace, exalted, glorious, grand, lofty, majestic, recognized, shining, 6. conspicuous; synonyms (adi) clear, apparent, blatant, manifest, visible, blazing, bold, evident, flagrant, glaring, open, ostentatious, patent, perceptible, pretentious; *antonym* (adj) unobtrusive, 7. shining; synonyms (v) shine, (adj) bright, lustrous, glossy, luminous, radiant, resplendent, effulgent, glistening, glittering, glowing, sheeny, sunny, beaming, (n) lucid; antonym (adj) dull, 8. noted; synonyms (v) notorious, ascertained, (adj) known, well-known, distingue.
- **видаток** expense; *synonyms* (n) cost, disbursement, charge, expenditure, price, outlay, amount, detriment, fee, payment, toll, disbursal.
- **ΒΗ/ΙΑΨA** delivery; *synonyms* (*n*) childbirth, birth, consignment, discharge, rescue, communication, confinement, deliverance, distribution, elocution, issue, surrender, articulation, (*ν*) address, parturition; *antonyms* (*n*) death, dispatch.
- **ВИДЕЛКА** fork; *synonyms* (n) crotch, branch, bifurcation, branching, turn, corner, angle, forking, junction, (v) diverge, divide, separate, split, bend, pitchfork.
- **видимий 1.** visible; *synonyms* (*adj*) obvious, perceptible, conspicuous, apparent, evident, open, clear, discernible, manifest, noticeable, observable, plain, appreciable, visual, transparent; *antonyms* (*adj*) invisible, imperceptible, **2**. apparent; *synonyms* (*adj*) patent,

- definite, ostensible, marked, outward, overt, palpable, specious, superficial, broad, external, surface, alleged, distinct, (adv) visible; antonyms (adj) unclear, real, mysterious, obscure, 3. conspicuous; synonyms (adj) blatant, blazing, bold, distinguished, eminent, famous, lagrant, glaring, ostentatious, outstanding, pretentious, remarkable, salient, signal, striking; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, unobtrusive.
- **ВИДИМІСТЬ** appearance; *synonyms* (*n*) air, face, look, semblance, shape, show, advent, apparition, form, image, impression, manner, surface, view, appear; *antonyms* (*n*) disappearance, departure, vanishing.
- **виділення** emission; *synonyms* (*n*) discharge, emanation, effusion, ejection, venting, vent, dismission.
- **виділяти** accent (акцент); *synonyms* (*n*) stress, dialect, emphasis, idiom, importance, speech, accentuation, articulation, intonation, pronunciation, (*v*) emphasize, emphasise, punctuate, accentuate, pronounce.
- **Βυσούγ ΒαΗΗ** M output; *synonyms* (n) crop, harvest, turnout, yield, outturn, product, expenditure, (ν) outcome
- **Βυπρούγβατυ 1.** mine; *synonyms* (n) dig, excavation, pit, fund, vein, shaft, (ν) excavate, sap, burrow, exploit, bore, tunnel, undermine, (adj) delve, gouge, **2.** quarry; *synonyms* (n) mine, prey, game, target, victim, butt, lode, objective.
- **ΒΗΛΟΘΥΤΟΚ 1.** yield; *synonyms* (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; *antonyms* (v) resist, persevere, **2.** production; *synonyms* (n) generation, product, manufacturing, performance, creation, formation, staging, fabrication, fruit, manufacture, origination, presentation, work, yield, (v) exhibition, **3.** output; *synonyms* (n) crop, harvest, turnout, outturn, expenditure, (v) outcome.
- видовище 1. spectacle; synonyms (n) display, pageant, scene, sight, exhibition, phenomenon, appearance, performance, picture, view, wonder, scenery, pageantry, (v) show, parade; antonym (n) modesty, 2. show; synonyms (v) present, broadcast, expose, guide, indicate, demonstrate, disclose, evidence, give, manifest, perform, (n) exhibit, produce, ostentation, presentation; antonyms (v) conceal, disprove, hide, 3. sight (3ip); synonyms (n) vision, glimpse, prospect, aspect, eye, eyesight, outlook, spectacle, (v) aim, spot, see, descry, discern, perceive, (adj) eyesore, 4. scene; synonyms (n) background, environment, panorama, lookout, perspective, act, look, position, arena, incident, location, set, setting, stage, (v) landscape.
- **ВИДОЗМІНА** modification; *synonyms* (*n*) alteration, change, adaptation, variation, adjustment, limitation, deviation, qualification, shift, accommodation, amendment, conversion, limiting, mutation, revision.
- BUAGOSMÍHIOBATH 1. alter; synonyms (v) adapt, change, move, adjust, affect, amend, castrate, convert, correct, shift, transform, turn, vary, alternate, distort; antonym (v) maintain, 2. modify; synonyms (v) alter, qualify, limit, assuage, moderate, restrict, commute, fit, revise, soften, temper, mitigate, condition, differentiate, exchange, 3. transform; synonyms (v) metamorphose, modify, translate, become, transfigure, transmute,

- process, reform, transmogrify, interpret, mold, shape, transpose.
- **видування** blowing; *synonyms* (*v*) fanning, (*n*) bravado, (*adj*) windy, breezy.
- видувати blow (дути); *synonyms* (*n*) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (*v*) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (*adj*) gasp; *antonyms* (*v*) calm, save.
- **ВИДУЖАННЯ** recovery; *synonyms* (n) rally, convalescence, improvement, reclamation, rescue, resurrection, retrieval, cure, deliverance, healing, recuperation, restoration, revival, yield, regeneration; *antonyms* (n) decline, loss, return.
- видужувати recover; *synonyms* (v) reclaim, recuperate, regain, retrieve, convalesce, find, heal, mend, rally, restore, improve, obtain, recall, recoup, redeem; *antonyms* (v) deteriorate, lose.
- **виживання** survival; *synonyms* (n) existence, relic, life, endurance, selection, remnant, continuance, trace, choice, continuity, excerpt, extract, landmark, option, patience; *antonym* (n) extinction.
- **ВИЖИВАТИ** SURVIVE; *synonyms* (v) live, outlast, outlive, subsist, endure, exist, remain, continue, last, be, abide, resist, weather, withstand, brave; *antonyms* (v) die, succumb.
- BUXUTU SURVIVE; synonyms (v) live, outlast, outlive, subsist, endure, exist, remain, continue, last, be, abide, resist, weather, withstand, brave; antonyms (v) die, succumb
- **ВИЗВОЛЕННЯ 1.** liberation; *synonyms* (*n*) release, emancipation, freedom, deliverance, dismissal, rescue, delivery, freeing, relief, salvation, enfranchisement, (*v*) discharge, acquittal, dismission, acquittance, **2.** rescue; *synonyms* (*n*) salvage, relieve, liberation, extrication, redemption, (*v*) deliver, extricate, ransom, free, recover, redeem, save, help, liberate, emancipate; *antonyms* (*n*) involvement, loss, (*v*) abandon.
- BU3BOJATH free; synonyms (adj) loose, frank, liberal, (v) clear, exempt, liberate, discharge, excuse, extricate, relieve, disentangle, acquit, deliver, disengage, ease; antonyms (adj) bound, restricted, compelled, confined, imprisoned, repressive, secure, strict, stuck, tangled, attached, busy, (v) confine, block, cage.
- визнавати 1. recognize; synonyms (v) acknowledge, know, discern, distinguish, identify, admit, discover, allow, appreciate, confess, realize, notice, descry, accredit, agnize, 2. acknowledge; synonyms (v) accept, avow, recognize, own, profess, concede, declare, affirm, agree, answer, confirm, grant, hail, observe, receipt; antonyms (v) deny, ignore, overlook, reject, 3. admit (допускати); synonyms (v) accede, include, permit, take, welcome, accommodate, adjudge, avouch, hold, receive, suffer, comprehend, consent, contain, disclose; antonym (v) exclude, 4. ассерt (приймати); synonyms (v) abide, acquiesce, adopt, assume, believe, yield, approve, assent, bear, espouse, have, reconcile, suppose, tolerate, (n) embrace; antonyms (v) refuse, snub, oppose, renounce, resist, 5. declare; synonyms (v) announce, advertise, allege, assert, say, attest, aver, proclaim, call, divulge, express, promulgate, pronounce, speak, (adj) communicate, 6. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, regard, score, tale, description,

- explanation, history, narration, reason, recital, story, tab, (v) report, 7. allow; synonyms(v) accord, give, afford, authorize, enable, endure, stand, appropriate, brook, leave, legalize, sanction, stomach, abandon, (n) let; antonyms(v) forbid, prohibit.
- Bu3Hahhf 1. confession; synonyms (n) avowal, admission, acknowledgment, recognition, concession, divulgence, disclosure, penance, profession, apology; antonym (n) denial, 2. recognition; synonyms (n) appreciation, identification, perception, cognizance, acceptance, acknowledgement, approval, credit, realization, remembrance, salute, understanding, commemoration, gratitude, (adj) reception, 3. acknowledgement; synonyms (n) acclaim, preferment, realisation, 4. admission; synonyms (n) access, confession, admittance, declaration, confirmation, acquiescence, affirmation, allowance, entrance, entree, entry, inclusion, introduction, pass, permission.
- визнати 1. acknowledge; synonyms (v) accept, avow, confess, recognize, own, profess, admit, appreciate, concede, declare, notice, affirm, agree, answer, confirm; antonyms (v) deny, ignore, overlook, reject, 2. гесодпіzе (визнавати); synonyms (v) acknowledge, know, discern, distinguish, identify, discover, allow, realize, descry, accredit, agnize, perceive, see, detect, hail
- визначати 1. define; synonyms (v) specify, characterize, clarify, explain, bound, construe, interpret, limit, name, restrict, circumscribe, outline, delimit, delimitate, delineate, 2. determine; synonyms (v) ascertain, decide, define, resolve, appoint, adjudicate, conclude, measure, set, designate, assign, decree, arrange, assess, choose, 3. identify; synonyms (v) distinguish, detect, discover, find, know, mark, pinpoint, place, recognize, see, spot, tell, describe, differentiate, understand, 4. qualify; synonyms (v) modify, prepare, moderate, capacitate, confine, determine, condition, enable, entitle, equip, fit, modulate, narrow, adapt, form; antonym (v) disqualify, 5. rate; synonyms (n) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (v) estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put, rank.
- визначений 1. definite; synonyms (adj) accurate, absolute, certain, clear, categorical, conclusive, concrete, decisive, distinct, exact, plain, precise, specific, reliable, actual; antonyms (adj) imprecise, uncertain, unclear, vague, doubtful, undefined, indeterminate, evasive, indefinite, indescribable, qualified, 2. determined; synonyms (adj) constant, decided, definite, resolute, determinate, inflexible, resolved, stubborn, ambitious, adamant, bold, firm, obstinate, set, tenacious; antonyms (adj) weak, irresolute, feeble, unmotivated.
- визначения 1. determination; synonyms (n) decision, conclusion, definition, resolution, decisiveness, resolve, tenacity, will, appointment, assessment, constancy, courage, firmness, fortitude, (v) award; antonyms (n) indecision, weakness, compliance, indecisiveness, 2. definition; synonyms (n) description, account, explanation, interpretation, limitation, definiteness; antonym (n) bagginess, 3. identification; synonyms (n) designation, finding, id, identity, mark, naming, papers, remembering, badge, recognition, denomination, 4.

- appreciation; *synonyms* (n) admiration, acknowledgment, approval, awareness, conception, estimation, feeling, grasp, praise, respect, taste, understanding, adoration, wonder, (v) sense; *antonym* (n) depreciation.
- Bизначено definitely; synonyms (adv) absolutely, certainly, decidedly, clearly, specifically, surely, undoubtedly, unquestionably, truly, exactly, completely, determinately, distinctly, emphatically, explicitly; antonyms (adv) perhaps, doubtfully, maybe, possibly, vaguely.
- **визначний** remarkable; *synonyms* (*adj*) exceptional, extraordinary, notable, noteworthy, odd, distinguished, conspicuous, phenomenal, famous, illustrious, curious, great, noticeable, outstanding, (*n*) memorable; *antonyms* (*adj*) ordinary, insignificant, unremarkable.
- Buï3д departure; synonyms (n) death, exit, leave, depart, deviation, divergence, parting, aberration, digression, going, leaving, passing, takeoff, (ν) decease, demise; antonyms (n) arrival, appearance.
- BHÏMKa channel; synonyms (n) canal, conduit, groove, drain, duct, line, passage, trough, waterway, aqueduct, link, hollow, (r) carry, conduct, convey.
- **викидень** abortion (аборт); *synonyms* (*n*) miscarriage, failure, fiasco, abortive, aborsement, castling, freak, termination, aborting, blunder, disappointment, incompletion, misadventure.
- **ВИКЛАД 1.** Statement; *synonyms* (n) account, declaration, affirmation, announcement, communication, instruction, assertion, command, description, proposition, enunciation, profession, argument, avowal, bill; *antonym* (n) denial, **2.** presentation; *synonyms* (n) donation, exhibition, demonstration, display, introduction, performance, offer, appearance, exposition, gift, exposure, induction, intro, overture, presentment.
- **ВИКЛАДАТИ** 1. teach (навчати); *synonyms* (*v*) inform, enlighten, coach, educate, instruct, indoctrinate, drill, learn, lecture, school, direct, discipline, form, (*adj*) guide, show, **2**. put; *synonyms* (*v*) place, fix, lay, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, (*n*) deposit.
- **викладач** 1. teacher; *synonyms* (*n*) instructor, master, coach, preceptor, educator, mentor, tutor, guide, missionary, trainer, adviser, counselor, guru; *antonym* (*n*) student, 2. professor; *synonyms* (*n*) lecturer, scholar, teacher, don, academic, connoisseur, 3. lecturer; *synonyms* (*n*) lector, professor, reader, orator, preacher, speaker.
- **ВИКЛИК 1.** challenge; *synonyms* (n) question, defiance, protest, contest, (v) defy, dare, brave, dispute, ask, call, charge, contradict, demur, deny, doubt; *antonym* (v) obey, **2.** call; *synonyms* (v) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (n) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; *antonym* (v) dismiss, **3.** summons; *synonyms* (n) citation, invitation, bidding, process, writ, invocation, warrant, vocation, act, indictment, requisition, **4.** ringing; *synonyms* (n) buzz, peal, resonance, ring, sound, plangency, reverberance, (adj) resonant, reverberant, loud, resounding, echoing, hollow.

- ВИКЛИКАТИ 1. cause; synonyms (n) case, action, occasion, account, basis, campaign, (v) make, breed, do, induce, allow, arouse, beget, bring, engender; antonym (n) consequence, 2. call; synonyms (v) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (n) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; antonym (v) dismiss, 3. create; synonyms (v) cause, construct, constitute, produce, build, compose, establish, form, generate, institute, start, concoct, contrive, design, develop; antonyms (v) destroy, terminate.
- виключати 1. exclude; synonyms (v) banish, bar, eject, except, expel, discharge, ban, debar, shut, disallow, eliminate, forbid, omit, ostracize, (adi) excommunicate; antonyms (v) include, incorporate, admit, comprise, permit, 2. eliminate; synonyms (v) abolish, delete, rid, annihilate, cancel, dispel, eradicate, extinguish, obliterate, take, clear, destroy, discard, dismiss, erase, 3. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose, confine; antonym (v) allow.
- **ВИКЛЮЧЕННЯ** exclusion; *synonyms* (n) exception, banishment, elimination, debarment, expulsion, ejection, omission, ostracism, prohibition, rejection, repudiation, barring, nonadmission, dismissal, disqualification; *antonyms* (n) inclusion, addition, entitlement.
- виключити exclude; *synonyms* (*v*) banish, bar, eject, except, expel, discharge, ban, debar, shut, disallow, eliminate, forbid, omit, ostracize, (*adj*) excommunicate; *antonyms* (*v*) include, incorporate, admit, comprise, permit.
- ВИКЛЮЧНИЙ 1. sole (ЄДИНИЙ); synonyms (adj) lone, single, singular, one, alone, exclusive, individual, only, solitary, particular, separate, (n) bottom, base, flounder, (v) resole, 2. exclusive; synonyms (adj) private, sole, special, choice, peculiar, select, undivided, chic, elite, personal, especial, classy, expensive, restricted, (n) scoop; antonyms (adj) inclusive, common.
- виключно 1. exclusively; synonyms (adv) alone, entirely, only, solely, completely, purely, specially, wholly, totally, 2. alone; synonyms (adj) forlorn, individual, lonely, lonesome, all, deserted, unequalled, friendless, lone, separate, (adv) apart, exclusively, individually, separately, (n) isolated; antonym (adv) together, 3. solely; synonyms (adv) simply, merely, just, but, barely, (adj) singly.
- виконавчий 1. executive; *synonyms* (*n*) administrator, manager, director, administration, boss, officer, official, supervisor, commissioner, governor, head, management, (*adj*) administrative, managerial, (*v*) authoritative, **2**. administrative; *synonyms* (*adj*) departmental, (*v*) executive.
- виконання 1. execution; synonyms (n) performance, accomplishment, achievement, effect, enforcement, implementation, action, discharge, executing, doing, effectuation, administration, completion, murder, act, 2. achievement; synonyms (n) deed, execution, exploit, attainment, fulfillment, victory, effort, acquisition, gain, realization, success, end, (adj) feat; antonym (n) failure, 3. performance; synonyms (n) observance, operation, recital, work, fact, compliance, expression, play, production, rendition, show, spectacle, transaction,

- fabric, (v) efficiency; *antonyms* (n) omission, practice, **4**. fulfilment, **5**. implementation; *synonyms* (n) exercise, acceptance, functioning, agreement, approval, assumption, completing, effecting, embracing, employment, espousal, running, working, **6**. redemption; *synonyms* (n) ransom, atonement, salvation, expiation, buyback, repurchase, acquittal, recompense, release, reparation, rescue, satisfaction, **7**. realization; *synonyms* (n) awareness, comprehension, actualization, fruition, realisation, grasp, actualisation, consummation, recognition, understanding, conception, consciousness, acknowledgment.
- виконувати 1. fulfil; synonyms (v) achieve, complete, accomplish, do, execute, fill, perform, satisfy, fulfill, meet, 2. do; synonyms (v) act, cheat, commit, conduct, make, practice, defraud, answer, arrange, build, cause, construct, (n) function, occasion, bash; antonyms (v) neglect, unmake, 3. perform; synonyms (v) appear, behave, effect, play, enact, administer, operate, produce, carry, manage, comply, consummate, fulfil, go, implement, 4. realize; synonyms (v) discover, attain, appreciate, know, recognize, sense, obtain, discharge, learn, apprehend, clear, comprehend, earn, gain, get, 5. comply; synonyms (v) agree, accede, assent, acquiesce, consent, accommodate, conform, follow, accept, accord, allow, defer, obey, observe, yield, 6. carry; synonyms (v) bear, bring, convey, take, acquit, comport, hold, pack, transport, load, assume, admit, adopt, capture, cart, 7. tender; synonyms (adj) affectionate, painful, loving, sensitive, soft, sore, compassionate, delicate, fond, gentle, mild, (v) proffer, (n) offer, bid, overture; antonyms (adj) tough, hard, hardhearted, rubbery, rough, **8.** satisfy: *synonyms* (v) please, content, indulge. persuade, sate, satiate, appease, assuage, convince, delight, gratify, serve, feed, assure, (adj) suffice; antonyms (v) dissatisfy, disappoint, displease, intensify, 9. play; synonyms (v) pastime, exercise, joke, fiddle, flirt, wager, (n) frolic, game, sport, bet, diversion, gambol, romp, jest, amusement; antonym (v) work.
- **Βυκοπγβατυ** dig; *synonyms* (ν) jab, delve, prod, burrow, comprehend, excavate, investigate, probe, apprehend, (n) poke, excavation, gibe, punch, stab, taunt; *antonym* (n) compliment.
- **використаний** used; *synonyms* (*adj*) secondhand, exploited, accustomed, decrepit, depleted, exhausted, faded, habituated, hand-me-down, spent, threadbare, tried, victimised, victimized, wont; *antonyms* (*adj*) pristine, new, spanking, unused.
- BHKOPUCTAHHЯ 1. use; synonyms (n) custom, practice, benefit, habit, application, function, (v) exercise, employ, employment, expend, profit, advantage, exploit, occupy, (adj) usage; antonym (v) conserve, 2. exploitation; synonyms (n) abuse, development, misuse, operation, use, using, ventilation, plunder, achievement, consumption, corruption, cruelty, damage, defacement, despoilment, 3. application; synonyms (n) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, demand, diligence, effort, petition, request, attention, administration, call, claim, coating, exertion, 4. employment; synonyms (n) business, occupation, trade, career, duty, engagement,

- service, exploitation, avocation, berth, labor, (adj) work, job, (v) calling, profession; antonym (n) unemployment.
- **Використати** use; *synonyms* (*n*) custom, practice, benefit, habit, application, function, (*v*) exercise, employ, employment, expend, profit, advantage, exploit, occupy, (*adj*) usage; *antonym* (*v*) conserve.
- **ВИКОРИСТОВУВАТИ 1.** USE; *synonyms* (*n*) custom, practice, benefit, habit, application, function, (*v*) exercise, employ, employment, expend, profit, advantage, exploit, occupy, (*adj*) usage; *antonym* (*v*) conserve, **2**. employ; *synonyms* (*v*) apply, use, consume, engage, hire, wield, busy, exert, ply, retain, spend, take, utilize, work, (*n*) service; *antonyms* (*v*) fire, dismiss
- **викрадати** steal; *synonyms* (*v*) abstract, lift, purloin, creep, filch, misappropriate, pilfer, pinch, plunder, rob, snatch, sneak, plagiarize, slip, (*n*) bargain.
- викреслювання 1. cancellation; synonyms (n) annulment, abolition, cancel, negation, recall, termination, retirement, annulling, omission, circumduction, receipt, renunciation, abandoning, abolishing, circumloution, 2. cancel; synonyms (v) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (adj) abolish, nullify; antonym (v) validate.
- викривати reveal; synonyms (v) disclose, divulge, expose, betray, convey, detect, discover, display, exhibit, express, impart, present, announce, communicate, declare; antonyms (v) conceal, hide, cover.
- **викривлений** twisted; *synonyms* (*adj*) crooked, deformed, perverted, bent, distorted, coiled, misshapen, contorted, curved, twined, winding, wry, gnarled, tortuous, awry; *antonyms* (*adj*) straight, tidy.
- **викрійка** pattern; *synonyms* (*n*) model, design, fashion, form, mold, shape, example, figure, norm, order, paragon, cast, arrangement, configuration, (*v*) mould.
- **викручувати** twist; *synonyms* (n) twine, wind, spin, twirl, entwine, (v) turn, bend, distort, curl, coil, contort, deform, curve, pervert, wrench; *antonyms* (v) straighten, untwist
- **BUKYII** redemption; *synonyms* (*n*) ransom, atonement, salvation, discharge, expiation, buyback, performance, repurchase, fulfillment, acquittal, observance, recompense, release, reparation, rescue.
- **виливати** pour; *synonyms* (*v*) gush, shed, decant, flow, pelt, scatter, stream, discharge, emit, jet, run, spill, teem, (*n*) overflow, rain; *antonym* (*v*) drizzle.
- **виліковувати** cure; *synonyms* (*n*) remedy, antidote, medicine, salve, curative, curing, healing, therapy, (*v*) correct, help, treat, heal, pickle, preserve, restore.
- **вилікування** cure; *synonyms* (*n*) remedy, antidote, medicine, salve, curative, curing, healing, therapy, (*v*) correct, help, treat, heal, pickle, preserve, restore.
- BUJIKYBATH Cure; synonyms (n) remedy, antidote, medicine, salve, curative, curing, healing, therapy, (v) correct, help, treat, heal, pickle, preserve, restore.
- **ΒΗΛΊΥ UNIT OF STATE WITH ACT OF STATE OF STATE**

- **вилучення** withdrawal; *synonyms* (*n*) removal, retirement, retreat, secession, departure, defection, desertion, recession, backdown, retraction, repeal, recall, exit, exodus, (*v*) subtraction.
- **Вимагання** requirement; *synonyms* (*n*) need, necessity, demand, essential, obligation, prerequisite, provision, claim, clause, condition, exigency, must, necessary, proviso, want; *antonym* (*n*) option.
- **вимагати 1**. claim; synonyms (n) call, charge, allegation, privilege, right, title, (v) demand, ask, assert, exact, arrogate, contend, need, require, requisition; antonyms (v) deny, disclaim, forfeit, 2. require; synonyms (v) crave, claim, desire, involve, lack, want, entail, command, compel, force, necessitate, request, enjoin, expect, oblige, 3. demand; synonyms (n) requirement, sale, press, application, necessity, pretension, appetite, tax, (v) appeal, beg, take, challenge, clamor, order, assess; *antonym* (v) supply, 4. challenge; *synonyms* (n) question, defiance, protest, contest, provocation, (v) defy, dare, brave, dispute, contradict, demur, doubt, impeach, impugn, provoke; antonym (v) obey, 5. ask; synonyms (v) inquire, interrogate, beseech, consult, invite, plead, pray, quiz, enquire, entreat, implore, petition, solicit, summon, urge; antonym (v) answer.
- **BUMUKAY** Switch; *synonyms* (n) cane, replacement, whip, cut, permutation, (v) exchange, change, shift, substitute, convert, swap, flip, interchange, move, replace.
- **ВИМИРАННЯ** extinction; *synonyms* (n) destruction, extermination, end, expiration, obliteration, cessation, expiry, devastation, dissolution, demise, effacement, extinguishing, quenching, ruin, (v) death; *antonyms* (n) survival, preservation.
- **Bumip** dimension; *synonyms* (*n*) degree, breadth, bulk, magnitude, size, attribute, length, proportion, range, dimensions, bigness, stretch, amount, extent, mass.
- **вимірювання** measurement; *synonyms* (*n*) dimension, gauge, magnitude, measure, proportion, observation, extent, mensuration, size, valuation, estimation, breadth, measuring, weight, appraisal.
- **BUMIPHOBATH 1.** gauge; *synonyms* (n) criterion, caliber, gage, calibre, (v) estimate, measure, calculate, assess, compute, fathom, make, reckon, forecast, scale, appraise, **2**. measure; *synonyms* (n) amount, extent, beat, benchmark, degree, measurement, meter, quantity, act, allotment, action, bill, dose, (v) grade, evaluate.
- **виміряний** measured; *synonyms* (*adj*) careful, deliberate, moderate, calculated, reasonable, temperate, regular, leisurely, metrical, sober, cool, slow.
- **вимова 1**. pronunciation; *synonyms* (*n*) diction, accent, articulation, elocution, enunciation, delivery, speech, inflection, pronounce, declaration, pronouncement, delay, dialect, prolation, brogue, **2**. accent (акцент); *synonyms* (*n*) stress, emphasis, idiom, importance, accentuation, intonation, pronunciation, tone, (*v*) emphasize, emphasise, punctuate, accentuate.
- **ВИМОВЛЯННЯ** pronunciation; *synonyms* (*n*) diction, accent, articulation, elocution, enunciation, delivery, speech, inflection, pronounce, declaration, pronouncement, delay, dialect, prolation, brogue.
- **Вимовляти 1**. utter; *synonyms* (*adj*) absolute, (*v*) express, say, articulate, breathe, speak, state, tell, declare, deliver,

- emit, pronounce, talk, voice, reveal; *antonyms* (*adj*) partial, qualified, **2**. Voice; *synonyms* (*n*) speech, sound, language, part, suffrage, vote, vox, ballot, mouthpiece, representative, mouth, articulation, (*v*) enunciate, utter, vocalize.
- Bumoγa 1. requirement; synonyms (n) need, necessity, demand, essential, obligation, prerequisite, provision, claim, clause, condition, exigency, must, necessary, proviso, want; antonym (n) option, 2. demand; synonyms (n) request, requirement, requisition, sale, call, (ν) ask, command, require, appeal, beg, charge, expect, involve, necessitate, take; antonym (ν) supply, 3. claim; synonyms (n) allegation, privilege, right, title, application, assertion, (ν) assert, exact, arrogate, contend, pretend, argue, challenge, affirm, allege; antonyms (ν) deny, disclaim, forfeit.
- ВИМОГЛИВИЙ Strict; synonyms (adj) rigid, severe, stern, correct, accurate, austere, harsh, precise, rigorous, scrupulous, exacting, hard, inflexible, (v) exact, close; antonyms (adj) lenient, free, lax, flexible, imprecise, negligent, relaxed.
- **вимушений 1**. bound; *synonyms* (v) leap, border, bounce, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, (n) spring, jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, hop; *antonym* (*adj*) free, **2**. reluctant; *synonyms* (*adj*) disinclined, loath, averse, unwilling, hesitant, indisposed, loth, involuntary, backward, diffident, shy, chary, slow, tardy, adverse; *antonyms* (*adj*) inclined, willing, eager.
- **BUM'Я** bag; *synonyms* (*n*) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (*v*) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net.
- **Buha 1**. fault; *synonyms* (*n*) defect, blemish, error, failing, blame, blot, crime, delinquency, flaw, blunder, break, demerit, weakness, (*v*) deficiency, culpability; *antonyms* (*n*) merit, strength, **2**. guilt; *synonyms* (*n*) criminality, sin, fault, remorse, repentance, complicity, responsibility, guiltiness, shame; *antonyms* (*n*) innocence, blamelessness.
- винагорода 1. compensation; synonyms (n) amends, recompense, allowance, indemnification, reward, price, atonement, emolument, fee, pay, redress, refund, reimbursement, remuneration, (v) wage, 2. рау; synonyms (v) compensate, compensation, liquidate, yield, afford, clear, expend, give, remunerate, indemnify, contribute, (n) earnings, salary, devote, income; antonym (v) owe, 3. payment; synonyms (n) bonus, charge, cost, defrayal, expense, installment, deposit, contribution, defrayment, duty, money, reparation, return, bribe, (adj) penalty; antonym (n) non-payment, 4. reward; synonyms (n) guerdon, payment, premium, award, payoff, punishment, requital, retribution, bounty, gratuity, (v) meed, prize, repay, requite, honor; antonym (n) punish
- **винагороджувати 1**. crown; *synonyms* (*n*) top, apex, cover, crest, peak, pinnacle, summit, kingdom, acme, corona, coronal, (*v*) cap, complete, consummate, culminate, **2**. compensate; *synonyms* (*v*) balance, pay, recompense, reimburse, counterbalance, recoup, remunerate, repay, reward, correct, expiate, indemnify, offset, redeem, redress, **3**. pay; *synonyms* (*v*)

- compensate, compensation, liquidate, yield, afford, clear, expend, give, (n) wage, earnings, fee, salary, allowance, devote, income; **antonym** (v) owe.
- Buhaxia 1. invention; synonyms (n) contrivance, conception, fabrication, creation, fiction, imagination, discovery, artifice, design, device, excogitation, forgery, innovation, fable, creativity, 2. notion; synonyms (n) feeling, belief, idea, impression, caprice, concept, fancy, image, opinion, guess, hunch, conjecture, apprehension, consideration, (v) judgment.
- BUHAXI/J/I/BICTb invention; synonyms (n) contrivance, conception, fabrication, creation, fiction, imagination, discovery, artifice, design, device, excogitation, forgery, innovation, fable, creativity.
- **BUHEH** guilty; *synonyms* (*adj*) ashamed, culpable, criminal, faulty, hangdog, wicked, chargeable, condemned, delinquent, reprehensible, sinful, contrite, responsible, shamefaced, sheepish; *antonyms* (*adj*) innocent, blameless.
- **ВИНИКАТИ** arise; *synonyms* (*v*) rise, appear, ascend, emerge, issue, mount, originate, proceed, result, awake, commence, develop, emanate, ensue, follow.
- **винний** guilty; *synonyms* (*adj*) ashamed, culpable, criminal, faulty, hangdog, wicked, chargeable, condemned, delinquent, reprehensible, sinful, contrite, responsible, shamefaced, sheepish; *antonyms* (*adj*) innocent. blameless.
- **BuHo** wine; *synonyms* (n) vintage, vino, red, intoxication, (ν) entertain, (adj) lavender, lilac, mauve, plum, violet, amethyst.
- **ВИНОСИТИ** bear (ведмідь); *synonyms* (*v*) carry, accept, abide, acquit, stand, take, afford, allow, apply, assume, behave, brook, comport, conduct, convey.
- **BUHOCKa** reference; *synonyms* (*n*) citation, mention, quotation, quote, allusion, bearing, connection, recommendation, innuendo, annotation, character, concern, consultation, (*v*) cite, refer.
- **винуватець** author (автор); *synonyms* (n) writer, architect, creator, founder, inventor, originator, parent, producer, father, generator, maker, dramatist, (v) compose, create, write.
- **винуватий** guilty; *synonyms* (*adj*) ashamed, culpable, criminal, faulty, hangdog, wicked, chargeable, condemned, delinquent, reprehensible, sinful, contrite, responsible, shamefaced, sheepish; *antonyms* (*adj*) innocent. blameless.
- винятковий 1. exclusive; synonyms (adj) individual, particular, private, single, sole, special, choice, peculiar, select, undivided, chic, elite, personal, especial, (n) scoop; antonyms (adj) inclusive, common, 2. exceptional; synonyms (adj) abnormal, excellent, extraordinary, prodigious, singular, uncommon, exceeding, outstanding, rare, superior, unique, unusual, aberrant, infrequent, great; antonyms (adj) mediocre, ordinary, average, normal, usual, abysmal, inferior, poor, 3. exquisite; synonyms (adj) beautiful, elegant, delicate, dainty, gorgeous, admirable, acute, heavenly, wonderful, charming, fair, fine, graceful, intense, (v) delightful; antonym (adj) everyday, 4. sole (єдиний); synonyms (adj) lone, one, alone, exclusive, only, solitary, separate, lonely, (n) bottom, base, flounder, shoe, foot,

- plaice, (v) resole, **5**. particular; *synonyms* (*adj*) fastidious, careful, definite, exact, finicky, fussy, detailed, certain, choosy, circumstantial, critical, distinct, exceptional, (n) detail, item; *antonyms* (*adj*) careless, easy, vague, (n) general.
- **BUHHTKOBO** rarely; *synonyms* (*adv*) seldom, infrequently, hardly, uncommonly, unusually, little, exceptionally, scarcely; *antonyms* (*adv*) frequently, often, usually.
- **BUHSTOK 1.** exception; *synonyms* (n) exclusion, objection, exemption, anomaly, immunity, peculiarity, privilege, release, repudiation, condition, salvo, animadversion; *antonym* (n) inclusion, **2.** exclusion; *synonyms* (n) exception, banishment, elimination, debarment, expulsion, ejection, omission, ostracism, prohibition, rejection, barring, nonadmission, dismissal, disqualification, discharge; *antonyms* (n) addition, entitlement
- випадковий 1. accidental; synonyms (adj) casual, fortuitous, adventitious, chance, incidental, unintended, unintentional, contingent, haphazard, inadvertent, involuntary, random, unexpected, unforeseen; antonyms (adj) intentional, deliberate, 2. casual; synonyms (adj) accidental, careless, irregular, nonchalant, occasional, coincidental, cursory, easy, insouciant, lax, offhand, passing, unconcerned, temporary, carefree; antonyms (adj) formal, thorough, 3. incident; synonyms (n) event, fact, adventure, case, circumstance, episode, experience, happening, instance, occasion, occurrence, affair, contingency, (adi) attendant, concomitant, 4. eventual; synonyms (adj) final, last, terminal, prospective, ultimate, future, likely, probable, latter, potential, coming, forthcoming, indirect, secondary, vicarious, 5. occasional; synonyms (adj) infrequent, episodic, intermittent, odd, rare, periodic, scarce, sporadic, uncommon, few, (v) intermitting; antonyms (adi) frequent, recurrent, 6. random; synonyms (adj) aimless, patchy, arbitrary, indiscriminate, unplanned. purposeless, erratic, unselective, (n) accident, hazard, buggy, dogcart, (adv) helter-skelter; antonym (adj) systematic, 7. odd; synonyms (adj) grotesque, exceptional, funny, abnormal, curious, droll, eccentric. extraordinary, singular, strange, novel, anomalous, bizarre, fantastic, individual; antonyms (adi) normal, ordinary, even, typical.
- **ВИПАДКОВІСТЬ** accident; *synonyms* (*n*) chance, casualty, coincidence, crash, fortune, circumstance, contingency, event, fortuity, hap, hazard, incident, luck, smash, catastrophe.
- випадково 1. incidentally; synonyms (adv) accidentally, apropos, haply, incidently, circumstantially, glancingly, obiter, indirectly, remotely, seasonably, subordinately, timely, transiently, (adj) parenthetically, 2. accidentally; synonyms (adv) incidentally, unintentionally, casually, coincidentally, fortuitously, unexpectedly, unwittingly; antonyms (adv) intentionally, deliberately, knowingly, 3. casually; synonyms (adv) haphazardly, carelessly, nonchalantly, coolly, offhandedly, naturally, absentmindedly, apathetically, blithely, calmly, closely, cozily, cursorily, curtly, discourteously; antonyms (adv) carefully, anxiously, 4. occasionally; synonyms (adv) sometimes, irregularly,

- periodically, seldom, infrequently, uncommonly; *antonyms* (*adv*) frequently, regularly.
- випадок 1. occasion; synonyms (n) case, event, chance, episode, happening, incident, juncture, motive, opportunity, (v) cause, create, beget, breed, induce, make, 2. case; synonyms (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, (adj) patient, 3. incident; synonyms (n) fact, adventure, circumstance, experience, occasion, occurrence, contingency, time, anecdote, development, incidence, (adj) attendant, concomitant, accessory, incidental, 4. accident; synonyms (n) casualty, coincidence, crash, fortune, fortuity, hap, hazard, luck, smash, catastrophe, destiny, disaster, emergency, haphazard, misadventure, 5. event; synonyms (n) consequence, effect, issue, result, aftermath, accident, conclusion, eventuality, matter, outcome, competition, contest, proceeding, egress, (v) bout, **6**. occurrence; synonyms (n) thing, situation, act, circumstances, deed, outburst, 7. adventure (пригода); synonyms (n) venture, escapade, undertaking, essay, enterprise, exploit, excitement, feat, (v) risk, dare, gamble, jeopardize, stake.
- **випалювати** burn; *synonyms* (*v*) bite, glow, blaze, incinerate, scorch, sting, bake, beam, boil, cremate, flare, ignite, sunburn, (*n*) fire, (*adi*) flush; *antonym* (*v*) dawdle.
- **ВИПИС** extract; *synonyms* (*n*) excerpt, essence, juice, quotation, quote, citation, (*v*) draw, abstract, derive, educe, elicit, distill, express, get, extort.
- **виписати** write; *synonyms* (*v*) compose, indite, pen, correspond, compile, draw, publish, record, spell, outline, type, construct, create, frame, (*n*) copy.
- **ΒΗΠΗCKA** abstract; *synonyms* (*adj*) theoretical, academic, (*v*) abridge, filch, extract, lift, (*n*) synopsis, abridgement, digest, epitome, summary, abridgement, brief, outline, precis; *antonym* (*adj*) concrete.
- **ВИПЛАЧУВАТИ** рау; *synonyms* (*v*) compensate, compensation, liquidate, yield, afford, clear, expend, give, (*n*) recompense, wage, earnings, fee, salary, allowance, devote; *antonym* (*v*) owe.
- **випливати** follow; *synonyms* (*v*) chase, pursue, adhere, adopt, accompany, comprehend, continue, ensue, grasp, hunt, realize, succeed, track, emulate, (*adj*) catch; *antonyms* (*v*) precede, guide, head, lead.
- випорожняти empty (порожній); synonyms (adj) discharge, hollow, destitute, bare, blank, barren, abandoned, deserted, vain, (v) drain, clear, deplete, desolate, pour, spill; antonyms (adj) full, crowded, meaningful, packed, brimming, inhabited, occupied, swarming, cultivated, filled, laden, (v) fill.
- виправдання 1. apology; synonyms (n) excuse, plea, amends, defense, justification, regret, reason, alibi, explanation, vindication, acknowledgment, apologia, reparation, 2. justification; synonyms (n) apology, account, defence, cause, basis, grounds, foundation, authority, salvation, sanctification, support, argument, pardon, (v) absolution, acquittal, 3. warrant; synonyms (n) guarantee, vouch, authorization, security, certificate, commission, (v) permit, license, assure, justify, sanction, ensure, authorize, empower, endorse, 4. explanation; synonyms (n) annotation, commentary, definition, description, exposition, gloss, interpretation, solution,

- key, answer, caption, clarification, comment, elucidation, explication; *antonym* (n) mystery, 5. defence; *synonyms* (n) denial, abnegation, demurrer, refutation, demur, demurral, disproof, falsification, falsifying, prohibition, whitewash, 6. plea; *synonyms* (n) appeal, petition, pretext, claim, allegation, call, entreaty, prayer, advocacy, demand, pretense, pretension, request, suit, supplication.
- **Виправдати** justify; *synonyms* (*v*) excuse, explain, absolve, confirm, defend, exonerate, vindicate, deserve, apologize, claim, exculpate, palliate, rationalize, exempt, (*n*) warrant.
- **Виправдовувати** justify; *synonyms* (*v*) excuse, explain, absolve, confirm, defend, exonerate, vindicate, deserve, apologize, claim, exculpate, palliate, rationalize, exempt, (*n*) warrant.
- **виправдувати** justify; *synonyms* (*v*) excuse, explain, absolve, confirm, defend, exonerate, vindicate, deserve, apologize, claim, exculpate, palliate, rationalize, exempt, (*n*) warrant.
- **виправити** correct (виправляти); *synonyms* (*adj*) right, accurate, appropriate, becoming, nice, precise, proper, (v) adjust, amend, castigate, chastise, chasten, better, remedy, (n) true; *antonyms* (*adj*) incorrect, false, faulty, inappropriate, mistaken, improper, (v) wrong, spoil.
- BHITPABJEHHH 1. COTTECTION; synonyms (n) amendment, adjustment, alteration, castigation, chastisement, discipline, redress, modification, emendation, improvement, punishment, revision, editing, rebuke, rectification; antonym (n) fabrication, 2. amendment; synonyms (n) betterment, correction, transformation, change, conversion, mend, reform, variation, 3. retrieval; synonyms (n) recovery, reclamation, recuperation, acquisition, convalescence, recompense, retrievement, recouping, regaining, seizure, (v) revendication; antonym (n) loss, 4. reform; synonyms (v) amend, better, correct, rectify, modify, transform, ameliorate, emend, improve, reclaim, regenerate, remodel, renovate, rehabilitate, remedy.
- виправляти 1. correct; synonyms (adj) right, accurate, appropriate, becoming, nice, precise, proper, (v) adjust, amend, castigate, chastise, chasten, better, remedy, (n) true; antonyms (adj) incorrect, false, faulty, inappropriate, mistaken, improper, (v) wrong, spoil, 2. better; synonyms (adj) superior, (n) bettor, (v) improve, best, mend, recover, advance, ameliorate, emend, reform, enhance, exceed, excel, refine, surpass; antonyms (adj) lesser, (adv) worse, (n) inferior, (v) worsen, 3. repair; synonyms (n) fix, overhaul, (v) patch, redress, correct, cure, compensate, doctor, renovate, restore, heal, go, reclaim, rectify, renew; antonym (v) break, 4. remedy; synonyms (n) medicine, drug, relief, antidote, curative, medication, physic, remediation, salve, therapy, treatment, amendment, (v) help, relieve, aid.
- **виправлятися** reform; *synonyms* (*n*) amendment, (*v*) amend, better, change, correct, rectify, modify, transform, ameliorate, emend, improve, mend, reclaim, regenerate, remodel.

- випробовувати 1. test; synonyms (n) trial, audition, experiment, examination, measure, (v) assay, essay, examine, prove, quiz, sample, check, try, analyze, attempt, 2. approve (СХВАЛЮВАТИ); synonyms (v) sanction, adopt, accept, acknowledge, allow, admit, agree, endorse, let, ratify, support, applaud, acquiesce, authorize, confirm; antonyms (v) reject, censure, condemn, disapprove, forbid, veto.
- **випробуваний** approved; *synonyms* (*adj*) accepted, certified, sanctioned, allowed, authorized, accredited, agreed, conventional, regular, official, orthodox; *antonyms* (*adj*) informal, unofficial.
- випробування 1. probation; synonyms (n) test, trial, verification, discharge, freedom, (adj) apodeixis, apodixis, 2. test; synonyms (n) audition, experiment, examination, measure, criterion, (v) assay, essay, examine, prove, quiz, sample, check, try, analyze, attempt, 3. trial; synonyms (n) affliction, hardship, hearing, adversity, difficulty, distress, effort, endeavor, misery, proof, trouble, misfortune, sorrow, ordeal, (adj) experimental, 4. testing; synonyms (n) experimentation, inspection, scrutiny, (adj) hard, tough, trying; antonym (adj) easy, 5. proof; synonyms (n) confirmation, demonstration, probation, argument, authentication, evidence, sign, substantiation, validation, indication, establishment, pull, reason, support, testimony
- **випромінювання** radiation; *synonyms* (*n*) emanation, emission, irradiation, actinotherapy, beam, dissipation, flash, light, divergence, radiotherapy, spread, (*v*) radioactivity, plutonium, radium, (*adj*) radiance.
- **BUIIPOMIHIOBATU** ray; *synonyms* (*n*) beam, light, flash, glow, gleam, glimmer, brightness, irradiation, shaft, skate, streak, flicker, (*v*) irradiate, radiate.
- **BHIIPOMIHIOBATUCЯ** ray; *synonyms* (*n*) beam, light, flash, glow, gleam, glimmer, brightness, irradiation, shaft, skate, streak, flicker, (*v*) irradiate, radiate
- **ВИПУКЛИЙ** prominent; *synonyms* (*adj*) eminent, notable, noted, great, celebrated, distinguished, famous, illustrious, leading, noticeable, obvious, outstanding, salient, striking, (*v*) conspicuous; *antonyms* (*adj*) inconspicuous, unknown, minor.
- **ВИПУКЛІСТЬ** prominence; *synonyms* (n) eminence, hump, importance, protuberance, height, bulge, consequence, distinction, projection, celebrity, fame, moment, bump, extrusion, gibbosity; *antonym* (n) obscurity.
- Buπyck 1. edition; synonyms (n) version, print, circulation, copy, issue, number, adaptation, book, rendering, translation, variation, compilation, run, anthology, collection, 2. issue; synonyms (n) aftermath, egress, consequence, effect, event, exit, progeny, result, (ν) flow, emanate, arise, emerge, release, discharge, gush, 3. output; synonyms (n) crop, harvest, turnout, yield, outturn, product, expenditure, (ν) outcome, 4. series; synonyms (n) chain, rank, cycle, line, round, sequence, serial, set, string, succession, rash, concatenation, (ν) course, order, (adj) progression.
- **випускати** 1. issue; *synonyms* (*n*) aftermath, egress, consequence, effect, event, exit, progeny, result, (*v*) flow,

- emanate, arise, emerge, release, discharge, gush, 2. deliver; *synonyms* (v) consign, bear, carry, rescue, save, abandon, bring, liberate, pronounce, render, return, send, utter, drop, acquit, 3. produce; *synonyms* (v) give, cause, make, present, procreate, breed, construct, create, form, frame, generate, fetch, prepare, (n) gain, crop.
- виражати 1. express; synonyms (v) exhibit, articulate, convey, declare, demonstrate, display, mean, (adj) explicit, direct, definite, distinct, especial, clear, exact, (n) denote; antonyms (v) suppress, hide, (adj) slow, vague, 2. write; synonyms (v) compose, indite, pen, correspond, compile, draw, publish, record, spell, outline, type, construct, create, frame, (n) copy, 3. convey; synonyms (v) carry, communicate, bring, channel, conduct, bear, express, fetch, transfer, transmit, impart, take, transport, cause, cede.
- **ВИРАЖЕННЯ** expression; *synonyms* (*n*) diction, phrase, voice, appearance, aspect, declaration, demonstration, manifestation, articulation, express, countenance, face, idiom, indication, language; *antonym* (*n*) repression.
- **Bupa3** expression; *synonyms* (*n*) diction, phrase, voice, appearance, aspect, declaration, demonstration, manifestation, articulation, express, countenance, face, idiom, indication, language; *antonym* (*n*) repression.
- **BUPA3UTU** express; *synonyms* (v) exhibit, articulate, convey, declare, demonstrate, display, mean, (*adj*) explicit, direct, definite, distinct, especial, clear, exact, (n) denote; *antonyms* (v) suppress, hide, (*adj*) slow, vague.
- **виразка** ulcer; *synonyms* (n) boil, ulceration, blister, carbuncle, cyst, spot, (v) canker, fester, ulcerate, (adj) sore. cancer.
- виразний 1. expressive; synonyms (adj) eloquent, meaningful, significant, descriptive, mobile, revelatory, articulate, graphic, indicative, suggestive, vivid, enthusiastic, loving, 2. bold; synonyms (adj) adventurous, audacious, manly, resolute, arrogant, barefaced, courageous, daring, fearless, heroic, intrepid, spirited, stalwart, bluff, brave; antonyms (adj) cowardly, timid, modest, 3. pure; synonyms (adj) just, absolute, genuine, natural, artless, clean, clear, faultless, fresh, good, guileless, immaculate, innocent, mere, (n) chaste: antonyms (adj) impure, contaminated, diluted, dishonored, tainted, wicked, 4, sharp; synonyms (adi) acute, bitter, intelligent, acid, acrid, harsh, incisive, intense, penetrating, piercing, pointed, pungent, quick, (n) keen, (v) biting; antonyms (adi) blunt, dull, mild, gentle, rounded, sweet, bland, blurred, naive, round, smooth, 5. nervous; synonyms (adj) anxious, excitable, tense, afraid, apprehensive, fearful, shy, uneasy, firm, edgy, fidgety, neurotic, restless, (adv) excited, agitated; antonyms (adi) calm. relaxed. 6. talking: synonyms (v) mean. (n) talk, speech, articulation, communication. explanation, language, lecture, (adj) sound, healthy, heavy, legal, levelheaded, profound, reasoned.
- **виразність** 1. expression; *synonyms* (*n*) diction, phrase, voice, appearance, aspect, declaration, demonstration, manifestation, articulation, express, countenance, face, idiom, indication, language; *antonym* (*n*) repression, 2. emphasis; *synonyms* (*n*) accent, accentuation,

- importance, stress, prominence, import, intensity, significance, vehemence, weight.
- **Виразно** distinctly; *synonyms* (*adv*) clearly, clear, particularly, definitely, evidently, expressly, noticeably, obviously; *antonym* (*adv*) unclearly.
- **Bupi6 1.** product; *synonyms* (*n*) fruit, output, merchandise, proceeds, outgrowth, crop, article, commodity, composition, consequence, manufacture, harvest, development, effect, (*ν*) produce, **2**. fabric; *synonyms* (*n*) building, cloth, frame, construction, framework, material, fiber, performance, anatomy, organization, production, stuff, textile, (*ν*) edifice, structure, **3**. production; *synonyms* (*n*) generation, product, manufacturing, creation, formation, staging, fabrication, origination, presentation, work, yield, piece, growth, extension, (*ν*) exhibition.
- вирівнювати 1. plane; synonyms (n) airplane, face, aeroplane, aircraft, degree, stage, surface, (v) flatten, shave, (adj) level, even, flat, horizontal, smooth, flush, 2. even; synonyms (adv) yet, (adj) direct, equal, constant, equable, equivalent, identical, plane, regular, steady, clear, balanced, equitable, square, (v) balance; antonyms (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, jagged, unequal, 3. level; synonyms (n) grade, category, class, point, quality, (adj) straight, (v) floor, aim, demolish, destroy, dismantle, raze, bulldoze, equalize, fell; antonyms (adj) inclined, slanting, angled, (v) build, raise.
- вирішальний 1. decisive; synonyms (adj) conclusive, critical, crucial, decided, definite, final, important, positive, authoritative, convincing, definitive, determined, (v) absolute, categorical, determinate; antonyms (adj) indecisive, uncertain, unsure, weak, 2. critical; synonyms (adj) acute, decisive, delicate, pressing, severe, ticklish, urgent, vital, dangerous, fastidious, grave, imperative, minute, momentous, (v) censorious; antonyms (adj) complimentary, trivial, flattering, insignificant, approving, unimportant, 3. crucial; synonyms (adj) essential, deciding, fundamental, indispensable, key, main, major, weighty, basic, central, determinant, determinative, determining, (v) cross, cruciform.
- **вирішений** decided; *synonyms* (v) absolute, clear, positive, categorical, emphatic, marked, (*adj*) decisive, definite, determined, distinct, resolute, unmistakable, conclusive, fixed, peremptory; *antonym* (*adj*) undecided.
- вирішення 1. decision; synonyms (n) conclusion, determination, resolution, sentence, verdict, arbitration, ruling, choice, will, constancy, agreement, decisiveness, decree, (v) judgment, award, 2. solution; synonyms (n) dissolution, answer, settlement, resolve, explanation, key, result, remedy, definition, resolving, clarification, liquid, reply, cure, outcome, 3. resolution; synonyms (n) decision, firmness, purpose, solution, decomposition, analysis, fortitude, perseverance, resoluteness, dissection, conversion, courage, breakdown, motion, steadfastness; antonym (n) indecisiveness.
- **вирішити 1.** decide; *synonyms* (*v*) choose, determine, adjudicate, conclude, resolve, judge, settle, try, arbitrate, arrange, decree, fix, purpose, rule, select; *antonym* (*v*) waver, **2.** resolve; *synonyms* (*v*) decide, solve, decompose, dissolve, end, explain, melt, (*n*)

- determination, decision, firmness, resolution, answer, analyze, resoluteness, will; *antonyms* (n) indecision, weakness.
- вирішувати 1. decide; synonyms (v) choose, determine, adjudicate, conclude, resolve, judge, settle, try, arbitrate, arrange, decree, fix, purpose, rule, select; antonym (v) waver, 2. resolve; synonyms (v) decide, solve, decompose, dissolve, end, explain, melt, (n) determination, decision, firmness, resolution, answer, analyze, resoluteness, will; antonyms (n) indecision, weakness, 3. solve; synonyms (v) interpret, decipher, crack, elucidate, riddle, loosen, figure, guess, clarify, remedy, cipher, disentangle, enucleate, calculate, (adj) loose, 4. choose; synonyms (v) adopt, elect, pick, prefer, appoint, take, assign, desire, draw, excerpt, like, vote, wish, nominate, designate; antonyms (v) reject, refuse, 5. conclude; synonyms (v) close, complete, finish, gather, accomplish, assume, cease, deduce. terminate, derive, do, generalize, reason, stop, understand; antonyms (v) start, begin, 6. settle; synonyms (v) place, establish, pay, regulate, set, adjust, agree, drop, fall, reconcile, subside, accommodate, negotiate, (n) locate, (adj) confirm.
- **виробити** produce; *synonyms* (*v*) give, effect, cause, make, bring, present, procreate, breed, construct, create, form, frame, generate, fetch, (*n*) gain.
- **Βυροδίτοκ** yield; synonyms (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; antonyms (v) resist, persevere.
- виробляти 1. produce; *synonyms* (*v*) give, effect, cause, make, bring, present, procreate, breed, construct, create, form, frame, generate, fetch, (*n*) gain, 2. yield; *synonyms* (*n*) produce, return, output, proceeds, (*v*) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford, bear; *antonyms* (*v*) resist, persevere, 3. manufacture; *synonyms* (*n*) construction, fabrication, formation, production, creation, industry, assembly, (*v*) fabricate, build, contrive, invent, forge, concoct, do, fashion.
- **виробник** 1. producer; *synonyms* (*n*) director, creator, manufacturer, author, maker, manager, cause, entrepreneur, farmer, 2. maker; *synonyms* (*n*) architect, builder, inventor, producer, father, designer, poet; *antonym* (*n*) destroyer.
- виробництво 1. production; synonyms (n) output, generation, product, manufacturing, performance, creation, formation, produce, staging, fabrication, fruit, manufacture, origination, presentation, (v) exhibition, 2. manufacture; synonyms (n) construction, production, industry, assembly, (v) construct, make, frame, fabricate, build, contrive, invent, form, forge, concoct, create, 3. make (робити); synonyms (v) cause, do, fashion, force, get, give, let, compel, constitute, design, drive, erect, execute, fetch, gain; antonyms (v) destroy, lose, 4. making; synonyms (n) devising, fashioning; antonym (n) downfall, 5, manufacturing; synonyms (adi) industrial, developed, industrialized, mechanized, (n) business, engineering, trade, accomplishment, assembling, casting, commerce, completion, composing, composition, erection.

- виробничий 1. industrial; synonyms (adj) technical, commercial, economic, manufactured, mechanical, business, capitalist, developed, entrepreneurial, occupational, professional, residential, scientific, technological, urban; antonym (adj) charitable, 2. manufacturing; synonyms (adj) industrial, industrialized, mechanized, (n) output, production, engineering, trade, assembly, accomplishment, assembling, casting, commerce, completion, composing, composition.
- **виродок** monster; *synonyms* (n) giant, beast, brute, demon, devil, fiend, freak, behemoth, colossus, monstrosity, ogre, prodigy, chimera, (adj) huge, stupendous.
- **Bupok 1.** judgement; *synonyms* (*n*) discretion, assessment, discernment, opinion, belief, judging, judgment, mind, perspicacity, sagacity, **2**. decision; *synonyms* (*n*) conclusion, determination, resolution, sentence, verdict, arbitration, ruling, choice, will, constancy, agreement, decisiveness, decree, discrimination, (*v*) award, **3**. judgment; *synonyms* (*n*) decision, sense, idea, feeling, evaluation, prudence, view, apprehension, estimation, appraisal, consideration, estimate, insight, judgement, (*v*) condemnation.
- **ВИРОСТИ** grow; *synonyms* (v) advance, augment, develop, enlarge, expand, come, emerge, become, farm, get, rise, spring, turn, breed, accrue; *antonyms* (v) decrease, weaken, shrink.
- Bupomybahhs 1. growing; synonyms (adj) flourishing, rising, thriving, blossoming, progressive, swelling, adolescent, budding, burgeoning, cumulative, enlarging, (n) development, developing, growth, (adv) increasing; antonyms (adj) deteriorating, dwindling, 2. growth; synonyms (n) accretion, augmentation, evolution, gain, increase, enlargement, germination, accumulation, accession, addition, advance, improvement, increment, rise, (v) grow; antonyms (n) decrease, reduction, weakening, decline, 3. breeding; synonyms (n) education, generation, manners, nurture, reproduction, upbringing, cultivation, culture, fosterage, fostering, procreation, raising, rearing, teaching, training.
- вирощувати 1. grow; synonyms (v) advance, augment, develop, enlarge, expand, come, emerge, become, farm, get, rise, spring, turn, breed, accrue; antonyms (v) decrease, weaken, shrink, 2. farm; synonyms (n) property, grange, dairy, estate, farmhouse, (v) cultivate, raise, grow, hire, plant, produce, rear, rent, 3. rear; synonyms (adj) back, erect, after, (n) posterior, tail, backside, behind, bottom, buttocks, (v) nurture, educate, foster, nurse, build, elevate; antonyms (adj) fore, (n) front, 4. nurse; synonyms (n) doctor, amah, care, (v) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, harbor, lactate, cradle, keep, breastfeed, feed, harbour, hold.
- **Вирушання** outset; *synonyms* (*n*) beginning, opening, commencement, onset, origin, birth, inception, start, threshold, first, kickoff, offset, dawn, entrance, foundation
- **Вирушати 1**. start; *synonyms* (*v*) begin, originate, commence, drive, launch, embark, spring, activate, arise, (*n*) jump, onset, origin, shock, beginning, commencement; *antonyms* (*v*) end, finish, stop,

- conclude, halt, (n) conclusion, **2**. leave; *synonyms* (v) depart, forsake, go, abandon, desert, quit, escape, flee, lead, (n) furlough, holiday, permission, permit, break, (adj) empty; *antonyms* (v) arrive, enter, stay, remain, approach, change, come.
- висаджуватися land; synonyms (n) ground, country, soil, field, kingdom, domain, estate, nation, realm, state, (v) disembark, debark, alight, get, drop; antonym (adj) aquatic.
- **Βυταμκα** landing; *synonyms* (n) land, dock, touchdown, floor, platform, arrival, brow, approach, coming, dais, decking, harbor, model, plan, plat.
- висіти hang; *synonyms* (v) dangle, depend, drape, float, append, cling, decorate, execute, fall, flow, hover, swing, (n) suspend, delay, knack.
- **вислів 1.** expression; *synonyms* (*n*) diction, phrase, voice, appearance, aspect, declaration, demonstration, manifestation, articulation, express, countenance, face, idiom, indication, language; *antonym* (*n*) repression, **2**. phrase; *synonyms* (*n*) expression, word, locution, passage, parlance, (*v*) formulate, couch, articulate, put, enunciate
- BUCJOBUTH express; synonyms (v) exhibit, articulate, convey, declare, demonstrate, display, mean, (adj) explicit, direct, definite, distinct, especial, clear, exact, (n) denote; antonyms (v) suppress, hide, (adj) slow, yague.
- **ВИСЛОВЛЕННЯ** utterance; *synonyms* (n) declaration, expression, pronunciation, speech, exclamation, articulation, remark, statement, observation, language, phrase, speaking, tongue, voice, comment.
- **висловлювання 1**. utterance; *synonyms* (*n*) declaration, expression, pronunciation, speech, exclamation, articulation, remark, statement, observation, language, phrase, speaking, tongue, voice, comment, **2**. observation; *synonyms* (*n*) observance, attention, inspection, notice, contemplation, conception, consideration, perception, reflection, idea, notion, insight, commentary, (*v*) note, heed.
- **ВИСЛОВЛЮВАТИ 1.** express; *synonyms* (*v*) exhibit, articulate, convey, declare, demonstrate, display, mean, (*adj*) explicit, direct, definite, distinct, especial, clear, exact, (*n*) denote; *antonyms* (*v*) suppress, hide, (*adj*) slow, vague, **2.** voice; *synonyms* (*n*) speech, sound, language, part, suffrage, vote, vox, (*v*) enunciate, express, pronounce, say, speak, utter, vocalize, state, **3.** say, *synonyms* (*v*) remark, assert, observe, maintain, order, read, tell, guess, relate, dictate, command, narrate, affirm, allege, (*n*) voice.
- **ВИСЛОВЛЮВАТИСЯ** declare; *synonyms* (*v*) announce, advertise, affirm, allege, assert, say, attest, acknowledge, admit, aver, avow, proclaim, call, divulge, (*adj*) communicate; *antonym* (*v*) deny.
- **BUCJJYXOBYBATU** hear; *synonyms* (v) attend, discover, apprehend, understand, catch, examine, learn, listen, overhear, see, try, find, get, comprehend, gather.
- виснажений 1. exhausted; synonyms (v) weak, (adj) drained, fatigued, spent, tired, gone, dry, beat, depleted, empty, enervated, faint, jaded, weary, expended; antonyms (adj) energetic, fresh, refreshed, strong, 2. spent; synonyms (v) dull, evanid, past, slack, (adj)

- exhausted, prostrate, finished, dead, effete, worn, fagged; *antonym* (*adj*) remaining.
- **BUCHAWCHH9** exhaustion; *synonyms* (n) fatigue, consumption, enervation, lassitude, tiredness, weakening, expenditure, weariness, debilitation, enfeeblement, (*adj*) collapse, prostration, apoplexy, deliquium; *antonym* (n) energy.
- **виснажливий** Wasting; *synonyms* (*adj*) consuming, consumptive, corrosive, destructive, drooping, (*n*) atrophy, homicide, murder, slaughter, abrasion, assassination, cachexia, cachexy, carnage, decay.
- **BUCHAЖYBATUCЯ** Waste; *synonyms* (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; *antonyms* (v) conserve, save.
- BHCHOBOK 1. conclusion; synonyms (n) closure, close, end, result, cessation, completion, sequel, termination, decision, dissolution, ending, epilogue, finale, finish, (v) closing; antonyms (n) beginning, start, opening, preface, 2. consequence; synonyms (n) effect, import, importance, outcome, product, account, aftermath, concern, conclusion, corollary, event, moment, weight, backwash, impact; antonyms (n) cause, inconsequence, insignificance.
- високий 1. high; synonyms (adj) eminent, elevated, great, expensive, distinguished, exalted, lofty, tall, heavy, arrogant, costly, dear, (v) bad, fusty, rancid; antonyms (adj) deep, short, sober, (n) low, 2. tall; synonyms (adj) high, big, lanky, towering, unbelievable, strapping, long, exaggerated, gangling, grandiloquent, magniloquent; antonym (adj) small, 3. big (великий); synonyms (adj) ample, major, important, significant, thick, sturdy, generous, adult, burly, considerable, hefty, liberal, magnanimous, momentous, (adv) large; antonyms (adj) little, puny, (syn) tiny.
- **високо 1**. high (високий); *synonyms* (*adj*) eminent, elevated, great, expensive, distinguished, exalted, lofty, tall, heavy, arrogant, costly, dear, (*v*) bad, fusty, rancid; *antonyms* (*adj*) deep, short, sober, (*n*) low, **2**. highly; *synonyms* (*adv*) greatly, extremely, much, exceedingly, very, too, right, significantly, terribly.
- **BUCOTA** height; *synonyms* (n) acme, apex, altitude, crest, culmination, peak, pinnacle, top, climax, degree, elevation, eminence, grade, high, level; *antonym* (n) shortness.
- **висоти** height (висота); *synonyms* (*n*) acme, apex, altitude, crest, culmination, peak, pinnacle, top, climax, degree, elevation, eminence, grade, high, level; *antonym* (*n*) shortness.
- **височина 1**. hill; *synonyms* (*n*) height, bank, gradient, mound, ascent, elevation, acclivity, embankment, grade, hillock, knoll, pile, rise, (*v*) declivity, dip; *antonym* (*n*) vale, **2**. height (висота); *synonyms* (*n*) acme, apex, altitude, crest, culmination, peak, pinnacle, top, climax, degree, eminence, high, level, summit, zenith; *antonym* (*n*) shortness.
- **BUCOUITH** tower; *synonyms* (n) column, castle, pinnacle, monument, (v) soar, ascend, rise, arise, loom, building, edifice, erection, fabric, hulk, (adj) pillar.
- **BUCTABA 1**. performance; *synonyms* (n) act, discharge, achievement, execution, fulfillment, observance,

- accomplishment, deed, completion, exploit, implementation, operation, recital, (v) action, efficiency; **antonyms** (n) omission, practice, **2**. spectacle; **synonyms** (n) display, pageant, scene, sight, exhibition, phenomenon, appearance, performance, picture, view, wonder, scenery, pageantry, (v) show, parade; **antonym** (n) modesty, **3**. show; **synonyms** (v) present, broadcast, expose, guide, indicate, demonstrate, disclose, evidence, give, manifest, perform, (n) exhibit, produce, ostentation, presentation; **antonyms** (v) conceal, disprove, hide.
- Buctabka 1. exhibition; synonyms (n) demonstration, display, exhibit, exposition, exposure, fair, manifestation, presentation, show, spectacle, scene, appearance, array, expo, expression, 2. show; synonyms (v) present, broadcast, expose, guide, indicate, parade, demonstrate, disclose, evidence, give, manifest, perform, (n) produce, ostentation, pageant; antonyms (v) conceal, disprove, hide.
- **виставляння** exposure; *synonyms* (*n*) display, exposition, detection, peril, danger, risk, expose, discovery, revealing, jeopardy, liability, revelation, advertising, susceptibility, (*v*) disclosure.
- **вистачати** last; *synonyms* (*v*) endure, continue, hold, exist, live, dwell, (*n*) abide, conclusion, (*adj*) extreme, closing, final, ultimate, conclusive, concluding, farthest; *antonyms* (*n*) opening, (*adj*) first.
- **BUCTYII 1.** appearance; *synonyms* (*n*) air, face, look, semblance, shape, show, advent, apparition, form, image, impression, manner, surface, view, appear; *antonyms* (*n*) disappearance, departure, vanishing, **2**. projection; *synonyms* (*n*) bulge, hump, jut, prominence, protuberance, knob, ledge, overhang, plan, protrusion, bump, map, extrusion, forecast, (*adi*) salient.
- BUCTYПАТИ 1. appear; synonyms (v) occur, rise, seem, sound, emerge, show, break, arise, arrive, begin, feel, happen, look, surface, (n) come; antonyms (v) disappear, vanish, 2. speak; synonyms (v) express, converse, pronounce, articulate, deliver, say, utter, discourse, recite, talk, lecture, address, emit, mouth, state.
- **виступаючий** outstanding; *synonyms* (*adj*) eminent, due, conspicuous, great, owing, famous, distinguished, excellent, exceptional, notable, noteworthy, prominent, unpaid, major, brilliant; *antonyms* (*adj*) ordinary, paid, inferior
- BHCYBATH 1. advance; synonyms (n) progress, improvement, (v) further, proceed, promote, approach, encourage, raise, rise, boost, contribute, cultivate, develop, forward, (phr) accelerate; antonyms (n) deterioration, (v) retreat, recede, delay, demote, regress,
  2. push; synonyms (n) press, thrust, jolt, poke, elbow, (v) drive, impel, crowd, force, jab, jostle, nudge, prod, jam, rush; antonyms (v) pull, drag, haul,
  3. promote; synonyms (v) advance, help, aid, advertise, foster, prefer, push, assist, dignify, elevate, enhance, exalt, improve, increase, plug; antonym (v) discourage,
  4. recommend; synonyms (v) advise, advocate, counsel, propose, commend, offer, suggest, move, praise, urge, endorse, introduce, approve, exhort, nominate.
- **витирання** wipe; *synonyms* (*v*) rub, clean, mop, towel, brush, scour, scrub, clear, dry, wash, cover, (*n*) fling, flout, (*adj*) sponge, flush.

- BHTHPATH 1. Wipe; synonyms (v) rub, clean, mop, towel, brush, scour, scrub, clear, dry, wash, cover, (n) fling, flout, (adj) sponge, flush, 2. dry; synonyms (adj) thirsty, arid, barren, boring, dehydrated, dull, bald, hoarse, jejune, plain, (v) dehydrate, desiccate, drain, uninteresting, sardonic; antonyms (adj) wet, damp, moist, saturated, soaked, boggy, drenched, rainy, sodden, interesting, fresh, humid, juicy, succulent, (v) drench
- **BUTUCS 1.** Wind (BiTep); *synonyms* (n) air, gust, (v) coil, twist, curl, meander, turn, bend, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll, weave, **2.** Wave; *synonyms* (n) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (v) brandish, flap, flutter, flourish, swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon, ripple.
- **BHTİBKA** device; *synonyms* (n) contrivance, apparatus, appliance, artifice, emblem, contraption, figure, gimmick, invention, plan, trick, way, design, dodge, expedient
- **ВИТІКАННЯ** issue; *synonyms* (*n*) aftermath, egress, consequence, effect, event, exit, progeny, result, (*v*) flow, emanate, arise, emerge, release, discharge, gush.
- **BUTOK 1.** Wind (Birep); *synonyms* (*n*) air, gust, (*v*) coil, twist, curl, meander, turn, bend, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll, weave, **2**. spiral; *synonyms* (*n*) helix, volute, spire, whorl, (*adj*) helical, spiraling, turbinate, coiling, (*v*) loop, screw, corkscrew, gyrate, circle, wind, buckle, **3**. turn; *synonyms* (*v*) revolve, deviate, get, revolution, spin, become, convert, (*n*) go, bout, change, round, bent, shift, tour, bow.
- витончений 1. fine; synonyms (adj) delicate, agreeable, dainty, brave, capital, elegant, excellent, nice, thin, delightful, acute, admirable, alright, (n) penalty, (v) punish; antonyms (adj) poor, thick, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, wide, 2. delicate; synonyms (adj) fine, accurate, breakable, fragile, refined, tender, beautiful, brittle, difficult, frail, sensitive, soft, slim, infirm, careful; antonyms (adj) strong, inelegant, robust, heavy, sturdy, tough, 3. subtle; synonyms (adj) sharp, astute, elusive, exquisite, insidious, sly, discerning, cunning, ingenious, ethereal, keen, (v) shrewd, crafty, sagacious, dexterous; antonyms (adj) obvious, loud, 4. sophisticated; synonyms (adj) complicated, complex, cultured, experienced, urbane, involved, intricate, advanced, polished, suave, cosmopolitan, knowledgeable, cultivated, elaborate, knowing: antonyms (adj) naive, unsophisticated, inexperienced, insular, simple, 5. nice; synonyms (adj) fastidious, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, correct. decent, enjoyable, exact, particular, precise, right, minute; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible.
- **ВИТОНЧЕНІСТЬ** sophistication; *synonyms* (*n*) refinement, sophism, cultivation, elegance, complexity, adulteration, edification, enlightenment, finesse, judgment, style; *antonym* (*n*) innocence.
- **BHTOPF** proceeds; *synonyms* (*n*) income, earnings, gain, issue, return, revenue, take, emolument, payoff, profit, receipts, takings, yield, proceed, incomings.
- **витрата 1**. expense; *synonyms* (*n*) cost, disbursement, charge, expenditure, price, outlay, amount, detriment, fee, payment, toll, disbursal, **2**. expenditure; *synonyms*

- (n) consumption, expense, exhaustion, outgo, expenses, spending, use, acquit, assets, expending; antonyms (n) income, savings, 3. drain; synonyms (n) ditch, culvert, dike, channel, sewer, (v) deplete, waste, exhaust, bleed, leak, consume, finish, sap, (adj) cloaca, dissipate; antonym (v) bolster.
- **ВИТРАТИ 1.** costs; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, expenses, expense, expenditure, fee, damages, spending, upkeep, compensation, (*v*) accuse, allegation, anxiety, attack, care, challenge, **2.** expense; *synonyms* (*n*) cost, disbursement, price, outlay, amount, detriment, payment, toll, disbursal, **3.** outgoing; *synonyms* (*adj*) friendly, expansive, forthcoming, gregarious, demonstrative, extrovert, companionable, open, sociable, extroverted, extrovertish; *antonyms* (*adj*) inward, next, reserved, incoming, introverted.
- **ВИТРАТИТИ** spend; *synonyms* (v) consume, exhaust, expend, squander, blow, deplete, pass, wear, lead, invest, dissipate, draw, drop, employ, (*adj*) waste; *antonyms* (v) save, conserve.
- **витрачання** expenditure; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, cost, disbursement, consumption, expense, outlay, exhaustion, outgo, expenses, payment, price, spending, use, acquit, assets; *antonyms* (*n*) income, savings.
- **ВИТРАЧАТИ 1.** spend; *synonyms* (*v*) consume, exhaust, expend, squander, blow, deplete, pass, wear, lead, invest, dissipate, draw, drop, employ, (*adj*) waste; *antonyms* (*v*) save, conserve, **2.** waste; *synonyms* (*n*) desert, refuse, damage, trash, dissipation, garbage, (*adj*) spoil, desolate, barren, lavish, (*v*) ruin, ravage, destruction, devastate, languish.
- **витрачений** spent; *synonyms* (*v*) dull, evanid, (*adj*) exhausted, prostrate, expended, fatigued, finished, gone, dead, effete, jaded, tired, drained, weary, worn; *antonym* (*adj*) remaining.
- BUTPUBAJIUM 1. hardy; synonyms (adj) courageous, sturdy, audacious, brave, fearless, hard, manly, strong, gallant, robust, stout, forcible, (n) bold, daring, rugged; antonym (adj) weak, 2. strong; synonyms (adj) intense, powerful, able, deep, firm, stable, steady, cogent, durable, good, influential, lusty, potent, rigid, secure; antonyms (adj) bland, delicate, faint, feeble, frail, mild, pale, slight, unconvincing, cowardly, diluted, dull, exhausted, flimsy, imperceptible.
- BИТРИМУВАТИ 1. bear (ведмідь); synonyms (v) carry, accept, abide, acquit, stand, take, afford, allow, apply, assume, behave, brook, comport, conduct, convey, 2. tolerate; synonyms (v) suffer, bear, endure, let, permit, stomach, support, sustain, undergo, admit, have, submit, bide, withstand, pay, 3. sustain; synonyms (v) keep, continue, hold, maintain, preserve, prop, relieve, help, strengthen, affirm, assist, back, bolster, corroborate, encourage, 4. last; synonyms (v) exist, live, dwell, go, (n) conclusion, finale, finis, finish, (adj) extreme, closing, final, ultimate, conclusive, concluding, farthest; antonyms (n) opening, (adj) first.
- BUTЯΓ 1. abstract; *synonyms* (*adj*) theoretical, academic, (*v*) abridge, filch, extract, lift, (*n*) synopsis, abridgement, digest, epitome, summary, abridgment, brief, outline, precis; *antonym* (*adj*) concrete, 2. extract; *synonyms* (*n*) excerpt, essence, juice, quotation,

- quote, citation, (v) draw, abstract, derive, educe, elicit, distill, express, get, extort, **3**. extraction; *synonyms* (n) descent, ancestry, birth, origin, family, lineage, removal, blood, beginning, genealogy, line, parentage, stock, strain, withdrawal; *antonym* (n) insertion.
- **BUTHFATU** extend; *synonyms* (v) expand, enlarge, amplify, broaden, dilate, widen, augment, continue, elongate, go, spread, carry, develop, increase, (*adj*) stretch; *antonyms* (v) withdraw, shorten, limit, narrow, shrink.
- **витягнутий** drawn; *synonyms* (*adj*) haggard, careworn, worn, gaunt, pinched, taut, cadaverous, tired.
- **BHTHIFYBAHHH 1.** extension; *synonyms* (*n*) continuation, augmentation, enlargement, expansion, addition, increase, annex, elongation, expanse, stretch, development, amplification, annexe, circulation, dissemination; *antonyms* (*n*) limitation, contraction, limit, **2.** exhaustion; *synonyms* (*n*) fatigue, consumption, enervation, lassitude, tiredness, weakening, expenditure, weariness, debilitation, enfeeblement, (*adj*) collapse, prostration, apoplexy, deliquium; *antonym* (*n*) energy.
- **ВИТЯГУВАТИ 1.** extract; *synonyms* (n) excerpt, essence, juice, quotation, quote, citation, (v) draw, abstract, derive, educe, elicit, distill, express, get, extort, 2. snake; *synonyms* (n) ophidian, serpent, hydra, (v) meander, wind, twist, coil, creep, curl, sneak, weave.
- **вихід 1**. exit; *synonyms* (n) departure, door, egress, outlet, gate, going, passage, vent, death, (v) depart, go, leave, decease, die, escape; antonyms (n) arrival, entry, (v) enter, 2. emergence; synonyms (n) appearance, beginning, development, emersion, birth, issue, origin, egression, outgrowth, 3. outlet; synonyms (n) shop, market, exit, opening, store, drain, emporium, hole, aperture, emission, gap, release, grip, 4. cast; synonyms (v) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, pitch, (n) casting, mold, 5. issue; synonyms (n) aftermath, consequence, effect, event, progeny, result, conclusion, (v) flow, emanate, arise, emerge, discharge, gush, circulate, debouch, 6. outcome (наслідок); synonyms (n) product, fruit, end, decision, corollary, purpose, sequel, upshot, offspring, answer, impact, fate, ending, implication, payoff.
- **Вихідний** opening (отвір); *synonyms* (*n*) gap, mouth, aperture, break, beginning, cleft, commencement, crack, door, entrance, hole, occasion, chasm, onset, (*adf*) preliminary; *antonyms* (*n*) end, closing, exit, finale, (*adf*) final
- **вихований** educated; *synonyms* (v) instructed, (adj) cultured, erudite, enlightened, learned, lettered, trained, informed, refined, taught; *antonyms* (adj) uneducated, ignorant.
- **ВИХОВАННЯ** 1. education (OCBITA); *synonyms* (n) training, discipline, instruction, teaching, breeding, background, culture, enlightenment, knowledge, learning, nurture, pedagogy, schooling, literacy, tuition, 2. training; *synonyms* (n) education, practice, preparation, exercise, drill, experience, workout, coaching, grooming.
- BHXOBATE.TL 1. counsellor; synonyms (n) counsel, advocate, counselor, lawyer, mentor, pleader, counselling, advocator, counselling, leader, direction,

- exponent, guidance, proponent, **2**. tutor; *synonyms* (n) instructor, teacher, trainer, master, guardian, lecturer, educator, (v) coach, instruct, educate, school, teach, train, edify, guide.
- BUXOBATU raise; synonyms (v) boost, lift, erect, hoist, increase, build, elevate, enhance, foster, grow, promote, prefer, augment, cultivate, (n) advance; antonym (v) lower
- **виховний** educational; *synonyms* (*adj*) instructional, informative, cultural, enlightening, elevating, inspiring, uplifting, artistic, civilizing, college, enriching, heartening, helpful, inspirational, intellectual; *antonym* (*adj*) depressing.
- BUXOBYBATU 1. foster; synonyms (v) cultivate, encourage, advance, cherish, breed, boost, foment, further, nurture, rear, support, educate, entertain, tend, keep; antonym (v) neglect, 2. breed; synonyms (n) kind, race, variety, ancestry, sort, order, class, genus, (v) engender, beget, multiply, bear, brood, cause, hatch, 3. train; synonyms (n) chain, string, (v) aim, coach, direct, exercise, trail, tail, tame, discipline, drill, instruct, prepare, school, domesticate, 4. raise; synonyms (v) lift, erect, hoist, increase, build, elevate, enhance, foster, grow, promote, prefer, augment, exalt, excite, heave; antonym (v) lower.
- BUXOДЖУВАТИ foster; synonyms (v) cultivate, encourage, advance, cherish, breed, boost, foment, further, nurture, rear, support, educate, entertain, tend, keep; antonym (v) neglect.
- **ΒΗΧΟДΗΤΗ 1.** appear; *synonyms* (*ν*) occur, rise, seem, sound, emerge, show, break, arise, arrive, begin, feel, happen, look, surface, (*n*) come; *antonyms* (*ν*) disappear, vanish, **2.** exit; *synonyms* (*n*) departure, door, egress, outlet, gate, going, passage, vent, death, (*ν*) depart, go, leave, decease, die, escape; *antonyms* (*n*) arrival, entry, (*ν*) enter, **3.** proceed; *synonyms* (*ν*) advance, move, pass, originate, ensue, run, flow, extend, continue, emanate, issue, operate, progress, result, stem.
- **ВИХОПЛЮВАТИ** tear; *synonyms* (*n*) split, rupture, rent, (*v*) break, rip, crack, pull, rend, lacerate, race, run, rush, slit, rive, cleave.
- вишуканий 1. delicate; synonyms (adj) fine, accurate, breakable, dainty, fragile, refined, tender, beautiful, brittle, difficult, frail, nice, sensitive, soft, slim; antonyms (adj) strong, inelegant, robust, heavy, sturdy, tough, 2. distinguished; synonyms (adj) celebrated, dignified, eminent, conspicuous, illustrious, important, renowned, reputable, famous, great, high, noble, prominent, splendid, superior; antonyms (adj) unknown, ordinary, 3. polite; synonyms (adj) courteous, cultured, civil, courtly, genteel, gentle, proper, attentive, kind, friendly, chivalrous, civilized, complaisant, considerate, cultivated; antonyms (adj) impolite, rude, bad-mannered, discourteous, boorish, 4. nice; synonyms (adj) fastidious, good, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, correct, decent, delicate, enjoyable, exact, particular, precise, right; antonyms (adj) unpleasant,
- **Вище 1**. above; *synonyms* (*prep*) on, past, surpassing, (*adv*) over, beyond, aloft, supra, up, more, overhead, (*adj*) preceding, former, upper, foregoing, previous; *antonym*

- (prep) below, **2**. beyond; **synonyms** (prep) above, (adv) further, without, besides, away, by, farther, abroad, before, yonder, (adj) across; **antonym** (prep) within, **3**. over; **synonyms** (adv) o'er, too, crosswise, anew, again, (prep) during, covering, (n) overs, (adj) finished, done, extra. odd. gone, out, spare.
- вищий 1. supreme; synonyms (adj) dominant, maximum, paramount, head, chief, sovereign, consummate, extreme, preeminent, principal, superlative, uppermost, main, prime, (n) utmost; antonym (adj) minor, 2. high (високий); synonyms (adj) eminent, elevated, great, expensive, distinguished, exalted, lofty, tall, heavy, arrogant, costly, dear, (v) bad, fusty, rancid; antonyms (adj) deep, short, sober, (n) low, 3. upper; synonyms (adj) superior, higher, top, overhead, over, highest, (n) amphetamine, speed, stimulant; antonym (adj) inferior.
- **BUSIB** demonstration; *synonyms* (*n*) parade, proof, argument, display, manifestation, presentation, demo, evidence, exhibition, illustration, show, testimony, showing, indication, (*v*) exposition.
- **виявлення 1**. detection; *synonyms* (*n*) discovery, demodulation, detecting, uncovering, unearthing, spotting, spying, catching, recognition, **2**. discovery; *synonyms* (*n*) detection, disclosure, breakthrough, finding, revelation, revealing, development, exploration, find, invention, espial; *antonym* (*n*) concealment.
- виявляти 1. detect; synonyms (v) catch, discover, find, ascertain, discern, notice, observe, see, spot, trace, determine, distinguish, identify, locate, descry, 2. find; synonyms (v) detect, encounter, acquire, attain, feel, procure, gather, acknowledge, chance, decide, (n) detection, disclosure, discovery, search, breakthrough; antonyms (v) lose, misplace, 3. discover; synonyms (v) disclose, perceive, divulge, expose, hear, impart, behold, betray, declare, devise, invent, reveal, strike, tell, uncover, 4. demonstrate; synonyms (v) prove, authenticate, attest, display, establish, exhibit, present, show, argue, certify, confirm, evidence, exemplify, explain, indicate; antonyms (v) disprove, conceal, 5. display; synonyms (n) array, presentation, appearance, screen, demonstration, exhibition, ostentation, scene, showing, spectacle, view, (v) parade, produce, brandish, flaunt, 6. reveal; synonyms (v) convey, express, announce, communicate, proclaim, develop, instruct, break, confess, leak, manifest, open, publish, unearth, unfold; antonyms (v) hide, cover, 7. show; synonyms (v) broadcast, guide, demonstrate, give, perform, figure, denote, evince, illustrate, (n) pageant, picture, semblance, act, indication, (adj) direct.
- **ВИЯВЛЯТИСЯ** prove; *synonyms* (*v*) demonstrate, attest, confirm, manifest, establish, evidence, examine, show, approve, assert, authenticate, check, corroborate, essay, evince; *antonym* (*v*) disprove.
- **вібрація** pulse; *synonyms* (*n*) beat, impulse, pulsation, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, pounding, cadence, measure, pulsing, (*v*) pulsate, throb, palpitate, pound, vibrate.
- **вібрувати** pulse; *synonyms* (*n*) beat, impulse, pulsation, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, pounding, cadence, measure, pulsing, (*v*) pulsate, throb, palpitate, pound, vibrate.
- **BiBTap** altar; *synonyms* (n) shrine, sacristy, sanctuary.

- **вівці** sheep (вівця); *synonyms* (*n*) mutton, goat, cattle, follower, stock, antelopes, bison, bleater, camels, chevrotains, cloud, deer, giraffes, goats, livestock.
- **вівця** sheep; *synonyms* (*n*) mutton, goat, cattle, follower, stock, antelopes, bison, bleater, camels, chevrotains, cloud, deer, giraffes, goats, livestock.
- Big 1. off; synonyms (adv) by, forth, beyond, over, aside, gone, abreast, (adj) away, bad, putrid, remote, down, rotten, wide, (int) out; antonyms (adj) fresh, on, 2. with; synonyms (prep) for, alongside, among, plus, (adv) beside, (adj) including, (n) withe.
- **відбивати 1**. reflect; *synonyms* (v) deliberate, ponder, cogitate, consider, contemplate, meditate, muse, mirror, mull, think, bethink, echo, excogitate, ruminate, shine, **2**. beat; *synonyms* (v) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (n) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; *antonym* (v) lose, **3**. image; *synonyms* (n) figure, picture, fancy, conception, effigy, form, idea, impression, resemblance, design, double, epitome, icon, (v) depict, envision, **4**. mirror (дзеркало); *synonyms* (n) model, exemplar, (v) glass, imitate, copy, reflect, represent, reproduce, lens, mimic, (*adj*) pattern,
- **Відбирати 1**. pick; *synonyms* (*v*) clean, gather, harvest, opt, break, (*n*) alternative, elite, best, choice, option, selection, (*adj*) cream, select, mattock, flower, **2**. rob; *synonyms* (*v*) filch, pinch, deprive, pilfer, pillage, plunder, rifle, fleece, lift, purloin, steal, pick, divest, defraud, despoil.
- **відбиток 1**. impression (враження); synonyms (n) belief, conception, feeling, idea, imprint, depression, image, mark, notion, dent, appearance, effect, feel, impress, influence, 2. impress; synonyms (v) affect, move, print, inscribe, instill, touch, emboss, inculcate, strike, amaze, dazzle, (n) stamp, impression, press, emblem, 3. reflection; synonyms (n) consideration, contemplation, observation, cogitation, deliberation, meditation, musing, reflexion, thought, introspection, repercussion, animadversion, echo, expression, likeness, **4.** print; synonyms (n) engraving, copy, lettering, picture, facsimile, letterpress, reproduction, type. etching, brand, replica, duplicate, (v) photograph, issue, engrave, 5. mark; synonyms (n) evidence, score, character, heed, sign, feature, badge, check, (v) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, differentiate, (adj) notice, **6**. pressure; synonyms (n) force, compulsion, constraint, duress, exigency, insistence, load, pinch, urge, weight, emergency, hardship, jam, (v) drive, coerce; antonym (n) persuasion, 7. press; synonyms (n) closet, newspaper, (v) crush, crowd, squeeze, pack, compress, exhort, mash, push, clasp, hug, pressure, squash, (adj) constrain.
- **Відбиття** reflection; *synonyms* (*n*) consideration, contemplation, observation, cogitation, deliberation, meditation, musing, reflexion, thought, idea, notion, introspection, image, repercussion, animadversion.
- BiJGip 1. selection; synonyms (n) election, choice, option, alternative, extract, quotation, assortment, pick, preference, range, collection, appointment, excerpt, volition, voting, 2. pick; synonyms (v) clean, gather, harvest, opt, break, choose, collect, cull, (n) elite, best, selection, (adj) cream, select, mattock, flower.

- **відбірний** selective; *synonyms* (*adj*) select, particular, discriminating, elective, exclusive, choosy, finicky, discerning, judicious, persnickety, fastidious, picky, eclectic, fussy, astute.
- **ΒἰζϬ.Πμ**Cκ reflection; *synonyms* (n) consideration, contemplation, observation, cogitation, deliberation, meditation, musing, reflexion, thought, idea, notion, introspection, image, repercussion, animadversion.
- **відбуватися 1**. occur; synonyms (v) arise, happen, befall, come, fall, betide, chance, appear, be, develop, materialize, arrive, go, ensue, pass, 2. come (приходити); synonyms (v) approach, become, aggregate, amount, descend, get, hail, number, originate, reach, rise, spring, total, advance, accrue; antonym (v) leave, 3. happen; synonyms (v) bechance, hap, occur, transpire, encounter, find, proceed, result, supervene, fare, eventuate, break, elapse, begin, exist, 4. be; synonyms (v) live, act, consist, constitute, represent, cost, follow, form, lie, remain, rest, stay, subsist, comprise, (n) stand, 5. intervene; synonyms (v) interfere, intercede, interpose, mediate, arbitrate, meddle, interject, intermediate, 6. lay; synonyms (v) place, put, fix, set, deposit, install, invest, bear, allay, arrange, bet, (adj) secular, calm, (n) ballad, pitch, 7. pass; synonyms (v) flow, deliver, give, lead, move, offer, overtake, die, exceed, extend, lapse, surpass, make, approve, (adj) run; antonym (v) fail, 8. proceed; synonyms (v) continue, emanate, issue, operate, progress, stem, do, hold, depart, journey, keep, travel, maintain, derive, manage.
- відбудова 1. rehabilitation; synonyms (n) reclamation, reinstatement, renewal, repair, replacement, improvement, redress, refilling, reformation, treatment, analysis, cure, healing, physiotherapy, psychoanalysis,
  2. reconstruction; synonyms (n) restoration, reconstitution, reestablishment, rehabilitation, conversion, change, fossil, innovation, overhaul, redecoration, remembrance, transformation, upgrading, rejuvenation, revolution.
- **відбудовувати** restore; *synonyms* (*v*) mend, refresh, reinstate, renew, renovate, fix, rehabilitate, rejuvenate, repay, replace, reimburse, heal, reconstruct, recover, (*adj*) repair; *antonym* (*v*) keep.
- **відбудувати** restore; *synonyms* (*v*) mend, refresh, reinstate, renew, renovate, fix, rehabilitate, rejuvenate, repay, replace, reimburse, heal, reconstruct, recover, (*adj*) repair; *antonym* (*v*) keep.
- **Βἰ**ДΒαΓα courage; *synonyms* (*n*) bravery, audacity, fortitude, backbone, boldness, gallantry, heroism, mettle, nerve, spirit, valor, chivalry, manhood, courageousness, determination; *antonym* (*n*) cowardice.
- Відважний 1. hardy; synonyms (adj) courageous, sturdy, audacious, brave, fearless, hard, manly, strong, gallant, robust, stout, forcible, (n) bold, daring, rugged; antonym (adj) weak, 2. brave; synonyms (adj) adventurous, endure, hardy, intrepid, valiant, virile, confident, dauntless, gay, martial, spirited, (v) defy, confront, face, (n) abrupt; antonyms (adj) cowardly, frightened, gutless, pathetic, (n) timid.
- **відведений** drawn; *synonyms* (*adj*) haggard, careworn, worn, gaunt, pinched, taut, cadaverous, tired.

- **відведення** withdrawal; *synonyms* (*n*) removal, retirement, retreat, secession, departure, defection, desertion, recession, backdown, retraction, repeal, recall, exit, exodus, (*v*) subtraction.
- **Відвертати** prevent; *synonyms* (*v*) obstruct, anticipate, block, forbid, arrest, avert, avoid, bar, debar, exclude, forestall, hamper, impede, obviate, (*n*) hinder; *antonym* (*v*) encourage.
- Відвертий 1. frank; synonyms (adj) candid, blunt, direct, downright, honest, sincere, fair, forthright, hearty, open, plain, straightforward, clear, artless, bluff; antonyms (adj) dishonest, guarded, devious, 2. overt; synonyms (adj) blatant, obvious, apparent, explicit, flagrant, barefaced, conspicuous, naked, public, unconcealed; antonyms (adj) camouflaged, concealed, covert, indirect, 3. straightforward; synonyms (adi) straight, square, simple, aboveboard, easy, frank, immediate, outspoken, outright, ingenuous, unsophisticated, upright, unequivocal, clear-cut, round; antonyms (adj) complicated, difficult, complex, deceitful, tricky, mysterious, pompous, 4. open (відкритий); synonyms (adj) exposed, free, bare, guileless, available, accessible, evident, gaping, (v) expand, give, begin, commence, disclose, expose, (n) loosen; antonyms (adj) secretive, furtive, hidden, limited, repressive, reserved, restricted, secret, blocked, cautious, closed, crafty, (v) shut, end, (tr v) close, 5. plain; synonyms (adj) ordinary, comprehensible, intelligible, homely, humble, level, manifest, perspicuous, overt, dull, even, lucid, natural, patent, (n) flat; antonyms (adj) elaborate, fancy, unclear, mottled, multicolored, ornate, attractive, confused, fussy, two-colored.
- BigBepto 1. plainly; synonyms (adv) apparently, evidently, clearly, manifestly, obviously, openly, distinctly, patently, plain, clear, definitely, (adj) frankly, honestly, freely, candidly; antonyms (adv) elaborately, imperceptibly, 2. openly; synonyms (adv) publicly, directly, ingenuously, bluntly, overtly, plainly, publically, simply, sincerely, straightforwardly, artlessly, barefacedly, boldly; antonyms (adv) secretly, clandestinely, furtively, mysteriously, secretively, ambiguously, covertly, reticently, 3. frankly; synonyms (adv) aboveboard, straight, truthfully; antonyms (adv) dishonestly, hesitantly.
- **відвід** challenge; *synonyms* (*n*) question, defiance, protest, contest, (*v*) defy, dare, brave, dispute, ask, call, charge, contradict, demur, deny, doubt; *antonym* (*v*) obev.
- **Відвідати** Visit; *synonyms* (*n*) chat, sojourn, (*v*) see, frequent, attend, call, tour, view, gossip, haunt, inspect, jaw, impose, inflict, talk.
- **Відвідуваність** attendance; *synonyms* (*n*) presence, attending, audience, turnout, hearing, tendance, attendancy, bodyguard, crowd, gallery, tendment, assemblage, assembly, congregation, draw; *antonyms* (*n*) absence. nonattendance.
- **BİДВİДУВАТИ** VİSİT; *synonyms* (n) chat, sojourn, (v) see, frequent, attend, call, tour, view, gossip, haunt, inspect, jaw, impose, inflict, talk.

- **відвідувач** visitor; *synonyms* (n) guest, company, tourist, visitant, traveler, inspector, stranger, foreigner, alien, sightseer, arrival, husband, supercargo.
- **Відводити** withdraw; *synonyms* (*v*) extract, remove, retire, retract, retreat, abandon, cancel, disengage, draw, leave, recall, recede, secede, depart, go; *antonyms* (*v*) advance, extend, give, offer, present, propose, deposit.
- **Відгалуження** fork (виделка); *synonyms* (n) crotch, branch, bifurcation, branching, turn, corner, angle, forking, junction, (v) diverge, divide, separate, split, bend, pitchfork.
- **відгороджувати** rail; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, balustrade, handrail, railing, fence, banister, track, path, pale, paling, bolt, barrier, (*v*) inveigh, vituperate, fulminate.
- **ΒΙΑΓΥΚ 1**. response; *synonyms* (*n*) answer, reaction, reception, echo, retort, return, respond, effect, chant, chaunt, comeback, (*v*) reply, rejoinder, (*adj*) sympathy, cordiality, **2**. account; *synonyms* (*n*) bill, narrative, reckoning, regard, score, tale, description, explanation, history, narration, reason, recital, story, tab, (*v*) report.
- **віддавати** return; *synonyms* (n) yield, pay, recompense, refund, restitution, proceeds, income, (v) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer; *antonyms* (n) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (v) keep.
- **Віддалений 1**. distant; *synonyms* (*ady*) cold, aloof, remote, chill, cool, detached, far, reserved, long, faraway, icy, indifferent, removed, (*adv*) apart, (*n*) chilly; *antonyms* (*adj*) close, adjacent, friendly, near, nearby, neighboring, warm, pending, alert, intimate, involved, **2**. remote; *synonyms* (*adj*) distant, inaccessible, outside, faint, alien, foreign, isolated, lonely, outlying, secluded, unapproachable, away, extraneous, slender, slight; *antonym* (*adj*) accessible, **3**. back; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, backward, (*n*) rear, (*adj*) assist, (*v*) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) face, (*v*) front, oppose, advance.
- відданий 1. devoted; synonyms (adj) addicted, affectionate, ardent, consecrated, constant, faithful, fond, loyal, pious, committed, dutiful, eager, enthusiastic, keen, (prep) dedicated; antonyms (adj) uncommitted, disloyal, indifferent, 2. true; synonyms (adj) real, actual, right, even, accurate, authentic, correct, exact, honest, straight, truthful, direct, sincere, (v) square, (n) genuine; antonyms (adj) false, bogus, inaccurate, untrue, 3. faithful (вірний): synonyms (adi) close, dependable. devoted, sound, true, unfailing, devout, fast, literal, reliable, religious, responsible, steadfast, strict, upright; antonyms (adj) unfaithful, unreliable, 4. attached; synonyms (adj) connected, affiliated, associated, loving, near; antonyms (adj) detached, separate, unmarried, 5. loyal; synonyms (adj) unwavering, steady, obedient, liege, observant, patriotic, staunch, trustworthy, trusty, resolute, (v) firm, stanch.
- **відданість 1**. devotion; *synonyms* (*n*) adoration, allegiance, attachment, dedication, loyalty, passion, worship, affection, consecration, constancy, devotedness, enthusiasm, fondness, love, (*adj*) veneration; *antonyms* (*n*) indifference, disloyalty, **2**. allegiance; *synonyms* (*n*) devotion, commitment, faith,

- faithfulness, duty, fealty, fidelity, homage; *antonym* (n) sedition, **3**. attachment; *synonyms* (n) appendix, accessory, addition, adherence, regard, appendage, association, bond, connection, fitting, liking, link, tie, annex, addendum; *antonym* (n) detachment, **4**. dedication; *synonyms* (n) inscription, sanctification, fanaticism, (adj) glorification.
- **віддати** return; *synonyms* (n) yield, pay, recompense, refund, restitution, proceeds, income, (v) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer; *antonyms* (n) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (v) keep.
- **Віддача** output; *synonyms* (*n*) crop, harvest, turnout, yield, outturn, product, expenditure, (*v*) outcome.
- **віддзеркалювати** reflect; *synonyms* (v) deliberate, ponder, cogitate, consider, contemplate, meditate, muse, mirror, mull, think, bethink, echo, excogitate, ruminate, shine.
- **Відділ 1.** Section; *synonyms* (*n*) division, part, portion, compartment, percentage, piece, class, branch, chapter, clause, department, episode, partition, region, (*v*) segment, **2.** department; *synonyms* (*n*) bureau, area, agency, faculty, section, arm, domain, field, line, office, realm, subject, service, district, group, **3.** bureau; *synonyms* (*n*) authority, chest, desk, dresser, box.
- **Відділення 1**. compartment; *synonyms* (*n*) cell, division, cabin, cubicle, separation, bay, booth, cubbyhole, (*v*) apartment, partition, **2**. department; *synonyms* (*n*) bureau, compartment, area, agency, class, faculty, section, arm, branch, domain, field, line, office, part, realm.
- Відділяти 1. divide; *synonyms* (*v*) cut, distribute, part, dissociate, apportion, detach, disconnect, dismember, dispense, separate, share, split, deal, distinguish, (*n*) break; *antonyms* (*v*) unite, join, 2. separate; *synonyms* (*adj*) detached, individual, particular, single, (*v*) divorce, insulate, scatter, discrete, discriminate, disjoin, disperse, divide, isolate, demarcate, differentiate; *antonyms* (*adj*) connected, joined, simultaneous, (*v*) merge, mix, combine, fuse, link, associate.
- **віддушина** outlet; *synonyms* (n) shop, market, egress, exit, opening, store, drain, emporium, hole, issue, aperture, emission, escape, gap, release.
- **відео** video; *synonyms* (*n*) television, picture, film, movie, telecasting, (*v*) tape, record.
- **Від'ємний** negative; *synonyms* (*adj*) minus, adverse, denying, damaging, destructive, contrary, unfavorable, (*n*) denial, (*v*) gainsay, veto, deny, disavow, kill, negate, controvert; *antonyms* (*adj*) positive, optimistic, assenting, (*n*) affirmative.
- **Відзначати** 1. mark; *synonyms* (*n*) brand, evidence, score, character, heed, impression, imprint, sign, feature, (*v*) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (*adj*) notice, 2. note; *synonyms* (*n*) comment, mention, remark, annotation, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, letter, memorandum, (*v*) mind, look, detect; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- **Відзначити** mark; *synonyms* (*n*) brand, evidence, score, character, heed, impression, imprint, sign, feature, (*v*) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (*adj*) notice.

- **Відібрання** deprivation; *synonyms* (n) bereavement, privation, cost, loss, need, want, deficiency, absence, damage, dearth, scarcity, destitution, disadvantage, distress, hardship.
- **Відійти 1.** leave; *synonyms* (*v*) depart, forsake, go, abandon, desert, quit, escape, flee, lead, (*n*) furlough, holiday, permission, permit, break, (*adj*) empty; *antonyms* (*v*) arrive, enter, stay, remain, approach, change, come, **2**. retreat; *synonyms* (*n*) refuge, resort, asylum, departure, den, lair, privacy, retirement, sanctuary, (*v*) recede, retire, withdraw, ebb, leave, return; *antonyms* (*n*) raid, (*v*) advance.
- **від'їзд** departure; *synonyms* (n) death, exit, leave, depart, deviation, divergence, parting, aberration, digression, going, leaving, passing, takeoff, (v) decease, demise; *antonyms* (n) arrival, appearance.
- Відкидати 1. reject; synonyms (v) refuse, decline, deny, disapprove, discard, dismiss, eliminate, exclude, rebuff, abandon, disallow, disown, ignore, renounce, (n) cull; antonyms (v) accept, approve, choose, select, acknowledge, grant, 2. deny; synonyms (v) contradict, controvert, disavow, abnegate, gainsay, oppose, reject, abjure, contravene, disclaim, disprove, repudiate, traverse, withhold, retract; antonyms (v) admit, affirm, claim, declare, agree, maintain.
- **Відкинути** reject; *synonyms* (*v*) refuse, decline, deny, disapprove, discard, dismiss, eliminate, exclude, rebuff, abandon, disallow, disown, ignore, renounce, (*n*) cull; *antonyms* (*v*) accept, approve, choose, select, acknowledge, grant.
- **Відкладати 1**. delay; *synonyms* (n) pause, arrest, deferment, wait, stay, deferral, extension, (v) defer, check, postpone, reserve, adjourn, break, detain, hesitate; *antonyms* (n) punctuality, decisiveness, (v) rush, advance, **2**. deposit; *synonyms* (n) charge, residue, guarantee, heap, hoard, lees, (v) bank, commit, store, fix, lay, repose, cast, file, leave; *antonym* (v) withdraw.
- **відкласти** delay; *synonyms* (*n*) pause, arrest, deferment, wait, stay, deferral, extension, (*v*) defer, check, postpone, reserve, adjourn, break, detain, hesitate; *antonyms* (*n*) punctuality, decisiveness, (*v*) rush, advance.
- Відкликання 1. recall; synonyms (v) retrieve, countermand, recognize, recollect, remember, repeal, rescind, retract, reverse, revoke, cancel, (n) anamnesis, memory, return, annulment; antonym (v) forget, 2. withdrawal; synonyms (n) removal, retirement, retreat, secession, departure, defection, desertion, recession, backdown, retraction, recall, exit, exodus, extraction, (v) subtraction.
- **ВІДКЛИКАТИ 1.** recall; *synonyms* (*v*) retrieve, countermand, recognize, recollect, remember, repeal, rescind, retract, reverse, revoke, cancel, (*n*) anamnesis, memory, return, annulment; *antonym* (*v*) forget, **2.** withdraw; *synonyms* (*v*) extract, remove, retire, retreat, abandon, disengage, draw, leave, recall, recede, secede, depart, go, shrink, subtract; *antonyms* (*v*) advance, extend, give, offer, present, propose, deposit.
- відкривати 1. open (відкритий); synonyms (adj) frank, obvious, artless, exposed, free, honest, bare, forthright, guileless, ingenuous, naked, (v) expand, give, (n) candid, clear; antonyms (adj) devious, secretive,

- concealed, furtive, hidden, limited, repressive, reserved, restricted, secret, blocked, cautious, (v) shut, end, (tr v) close, 2. discover; synonyms (v) ascertain, discern, disclose, see, find, perceive, catch, detect, determine, divulge, expose, hear, impart, observe, trace, 3. reveal; synonyms (v) betray, convey, discover, display, exhibit, express, present, announce, communicate, declare, indicate, show, uncover, proclaim, develop; antonyms (v) conceal, hide, cover, 4. detect; synonyms (v) notice, spot, distinguish, identify, locate, descry, sniff, encounter, espy, learn, note.
- **відкрити** open (відкритий); synonyms (adj) frank, obvious, artless, exposed, free, honest, bare, forthright, guileless, ingenuous, naked, (v) expand, give, (n) candid, clear; antonyms (adj) devious, secretive, concealed, furtive, hidden, limited, repressive, reserved, restricted, secret, blocked, cautious, (v) shut, end, (tr v) close.
- відкритий 1. open; synonyms (adj) frank, obvious, artless, exposed, free, honest, bare, forthright, guileless, ingenuous, naked, (v) expand, give, (n) candid, clear; antonyms (adi) devious, secretive, concealed, furtive. hidden, limited, repressive, reserved, restricted, secret, blocked, cautious, (v) shut, end, (tr v) close, 2. bleak; synonyms (adj) austere, barren, cold, dreary, black, desolate, murky, raw, bald, bitter, dark, depressing, gloomy, grim, harsh; antonyms (adj) cheerful, hopeful, lush, mild, sunny, 3. public; synonyms (adi) common, national, overt, civic, general, communal, mutual, popular, ordinary, (n) folk, community, people, populace, audience, (v) open; antonyms (adj) private, confidential, personal, 4. overt; synonyms (adj) blatant, apparent, explicit, flagrant, barefaced, conspicuous, public, unconcealed; antonyms (adj) camouflaged, covert, indirect
- **відкрито** openly; *synonyms* (*adv*) frankly, freely, candidly, publicly, directly, clearly, evidently, honestly, ingenuously, bluntly, obviously, overtly, patently, plainly, (*adj*) manifestly; *antonyms* (*adv*) secretly, clandestinely, furtively, mysteriously, secretively, ambiguously, covertly, reticently.
- **відкриття 1**. discovery; synonyms (n) detection, disclosure, breakthrough, finding, revelation, catching, revealing, development, exploration, find, invention, espial, recognition; antonym (n) concealment, 2. finding; synonyms (n) decision, determination, discovery, judgment, ruling, verdict, resolution, conclusion, analysis, 3. find; synonyms (v) catch, discover, detect, encounter, acquire, ascertain, attain, feel, procure, gather, acknowledge, chance, decide, determine, (n) search; antonyms (v) lose, misplace, 4. disclosure; synonyms (n) exposure, declaration, confession, announcement, betrayal, divulgence, manifestation, publication, admission, apocalypse, ascertainment, 5. revelation; synonyms (n) display, expose, inspiration, exhibition, vision, giveaway. apparition, surprise, brainwave, illumination, insight, (v) revealment, deterration.
- **Відлучка** absence; *synonyms* (n) absenteeism, dearth, default, deficiency, lack, want, nonattendance, paucity, scarcity, shortage; *antonyms* (n) presence, attendance.

- **відлюдний 1.** obscure; *synonyms* (*adj*) cloudy, dim, dark, gloomy, ambiguous, concealed, darken, hidden, incomprehensible, muddy, mysterious, clandestine, (*v*) hide, blur, cloud; *antonyms* (*adj*) clear, noticeable, simple, obvious, distinct, mainstream, (*v*) clarify, **2**. remote; *synonyms* (*adj*) distant, aloof, detached, inaccessible, outside, faint, alien, far, foreign, isolated, lonely, outlying, secluded, unapproachable, away; *antonyms* (*adj*) near, nearby, accessible.
- **відміна** abolition; *synonyms* (*n*) abolishment, annulment, destruction, ending, annihilation, cancellation, eradication, repeal; *antonym* (*n*) reinstatement.
- **відмінний 1**. different; *synonyms* (*adj*) another, assorted, dissimilar, unusual, various, alien, alternative, discrete, distinct, diverse, foreign, fresh, miscellaneous, new, opposite; *antonyms* (*adj*) similar, corresponding, equal, identical, like, typical, **2**. distinct; *synonyms* (*adj*) clear, articulate, different, apparent, definite, distinctive, palpable, decided, marked, plain, tangible, clear-cut, audible, (*prep*) separate, (*adv*) apart; *antonyms* (*adj*) indistinct, unclear, vague, inaudible, shapeless.
- **BIZMIHHICTS 1.** distinction; *synonyms* (*n*) contrast, difference, discrimination, eminence, rank, dissimilarity, demarcation, celebrity, prestige, reputation, consequence, differentiation, discrepancy, disparity, excellence; *antonym* (*n*) similarity, **2**. diversity; *synonyms* (*n*) variety, variation, divergence, assortment, distinction, inequality, unevenness, change, disagreement, dissimilitude, miscellany, unlikeness, variance, diverseness.
- **Відмінно** perfectly; *synonyms* (*adv*) entirely, completely, fully, absolutely, thoroughly, utterly, wholly, dead, flawlessly, quite, totally, altogether, clean, right, exactly; *antonyms* (*adv*) badly, imperfectly.
- **Відміняти** defeat; *synonyms* (*n*) frustration, ruin, beating, (*v*) crush, overcome, beat, conquer, abolish, baffle, foil, overpower, repulse, rout, subdue, (*adj*) rebuff; *antonyms* (*n*) victory, success, win, (*v*) lose, surrender.
- **відмітний 1**. differential; *synonyms* (*adj*) integral, different, totitive, exponential, logarithmic, (*n*) derivative, difference, distinction, fluxion, fluent, children, descendants, determination, earmark, feature, **2**. definitive; *synonyms* (*adj*) conclusive, decisive, definite, last, authoritative, eventual, final, explicit, categorical, critical, determinate, express, (*v*) decided, absolute, emphatic.
- BİДMOBA 1. refusal; synonyms (n) declination, denial, negative, no, rebuff, rejection, ban, prohibition, repulse, negation, exclusion, preemption, disobedience, repudiation, resistance; antonym (n) permission, 2. denial; synonyms (n) abnegation, renunciation, abjuration, contradiction, refusal, forswearing, nay, abandonment, rebuttal, refutation, veto, defence, defense, demurrer; antonyms (n) acceptance, affirmation, declaration, admission, confession, 3. rejection; synonyms (n) dismissal, exception, disavowal, censure, defection, desertion, effusion, ejection, disclaimer, snub, check, emission, nonadmission, omission, slight; antonym (n) approval.
- **відмовити** refuse; *synonyms* (*v*) deny, reject, decline, disallow, dross, rebuff, disdain, dismiss, (*n*) garbage,

- trash, waste, offal, debris, litter, leavings; antonym (v) accept.
- Biμmobjath 1. refuse; synonyms (ν) deny, reject, decline, disallow, dross, rebuff, disdain, dismiss, (n) garbage, trash, waste, offal, debris, litter, leavings; antonym (ν) accept, 2. deny; synonyms (ν) contradict, controvert, disavow, abnegate, disown, gainsay, oppose, refuse, renounce, abjure, contravene, disclaim, disprove, repudiate, traverse; antonyms (ν) admit, affirm, acknowledge, claim, declare, agree, maintain, 3. notice; synonyms (n) advertisement, attention, declaration, information, mind, caution, heed, (ν) note, look, attend, detect, discover, distinguish, find, mark; antonyms (ν) disregard, ignore.
- відмовлятися 1. withdraw; synonyms (v) extract, remove, retire, retract, retreat, abandon, cancel, disengage, draw, leave, recall, recede, secede, depart, go; antonyms (v) advance, extend, give, offer, present, propose, deposit, 2. decline; synonyms (n) decay, declension, decrease, dip, declination, (v) wane, drop, reject, fall, abate, ebb, fail, refuse, sink, deny; antonyms (n) improvement, recovery, development, growth, rebirth, (v) increase, rise, accept, flourish, improve, 3. abandon; synonyms (v) quit, relinquish, renounce, resign, vacate, desert, evacuate, waive, abdicate, chuck, ditch, forfeit, forgo, forsake, maroon; antonyms (v) keep, support, maintain, (n) restraint, 4. resign; synonyms (v) cede, deliver, surrender, forego, submit, yield, reconcile, release, commit, render, cease, concede, consign, desist, disclaim, 5. refuse; synonyms (v) decline, disallow, dross, rebuff, disdain, dismiss, balk, dissent, (n) garbage, trash, waste, offal, debris, litter, leavings.
- **відмовляються** abandoned; *synonyms* (*adj*) forlorn, immoral, deserted, empty, profligate, shameless, stranded, wicked, lonely, corrupt, debauched, depraved, derelict, desolate, discarded; *antonyms* (*adj*) restrained, inhabited, orderly, overcrowded.
- **віднині** hence; *synonyms* (*adv*) accordingly, consequently, therefore, away, because, for, then, thus, so, thence, whence.
- відновлення 1. reconstruction; synonyms (n) restoration, reconstitution, repair, reestablishment, rehabilitation, reinstatement, renewal, reformation, conversion, change, fossil, innovation, overhaul, redecoration, remembrance, 2. repair; synonyms (n) fix, (v) remedy, mend, patch, redress, correct, cure, compensate, doctor, renovate, restore, heal, amend, go, reclaim; antonym (v) break, 3. restoration; synonyms (n) restitution, renovation, revival, regaining, return. rejuvenation, recession, recuperation, reform, regeneration, comeback, improvement, revitalization, (v) amends, reparation; antonyms (n) confiscation, reduction, 4. renewal; synonyms (n) renaissance, rebirth, reclamation, refurbishment, rebuilding, reconstruction, recovery, repetition, replacement, replenishment, resurgence, refilling, 5. recovery; synonyms (n) rally, convalescence, rescue, resurrection, retrieval, deliverance, healing, yield, collection, recompense, release; antonyms (n) decline, loss.
- **відновлювати 1**. restore; *synonyms* (*v*) mend, refresh, reinstate, renew, renovate, fix, rehabilitate, rejuvenate,

- repay, replace, reimburse, heal, reconstruct, recover, (adj) repair; antonym (v) keep, 2. recover; synonyms (v) reclaim, recuperate, regain, retrieve, convalesce, find, rally, restore, improve, obtain, recall, recoup, redeem, rescue, salvage; antonyms (v) deteriorate, lose, 3. proceed; synonyms (v) go, advance, move, pass, originate, ensue, run, flow, extend, arise, continue, emanate, happen, issue, operate, 4. repair; synonyms (n) overhaul, renewal, renovation, (v) remedy, patch, redress, correct, cure, compensate, doctor, amend, rectify, resort, reform, bushel; antonym (v) break.
- **відносини** intercourse; *synonyms* (*n*) communion, contact, acquaintance, coition, coitus, communication, conversation, dealings, converse, commerce, congress, copulation, fellowship, fucking, (*adj*) familiarity.
- **ΒἰΖΗΟCUTU** drift; *synonyms* (*n*) stream, current, course, tendency, tone, bearing, design, gist, (*ν*) aim, blow, float, ramble, cast, glide, (*adj*) flow.
- **відноситись** refer; *synonyms* (*v*) allude, apply, pertain, submit, deliver, commend, advert, impute, name, relate, invoke, adduce, ascribe, attribute, consign.
- **відноситися** apply; *synonyms* (*v*) dedicate, devote, employ, ask, consume, exercise, resort, use, utilize, lay, appeal, address, administer, consecrate, (*n*) give.
- **відносний 1**. relative; *synonyms* (*adj*) related, comparative, proportionate, proportional, dependent, relevant, (*n*) relation, brother, connection, congenator, congener, (*v*) kinsman; *antonym* (*adj*) absolute, **2**. comparative; *synonyms* (*adj*) relative, qualified, approximate, illustrative, near, allusive, analogous, approaching, conditional, connected, contingent, contrastive, correlative, corresponding, (*n*) compeer, **3**. relational
- **відносно 1.** comparatively; *synonyms* (*adv*) relatively, rather, quite, reasonably, somewhat, alike, approximately, halfway, hardly, moderately, partially, partly, almost, essentially, roughly, **2**. about; *synonyms* (*prep*) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, of, (*adv*) around, nearly, most, in, nearby, nigh, (*adj*) some, near, practically; *antonyms* (*prep*) exactly, precisely.
- **відношення 1**. relation; synonyms (n) connection, account, narration, recital, affinity, association, description, regard, rehearsal, kin, bearing, bond, narrative, reference, (v) report, 2. respect (поважати); synonyms (n) honor, esteem, homage, worship, heed, notice, consideration, deference, (v) observe, admire, appreciate, estimation, keep, prize, reverence; antonyms (n) cheek, insolence, impudence, (v) disrespect, scorn. despise, dishonor, disregard, humiliate, 3. attitude; synonyms (n) position, aspect, posture, behavior, mind. notion, air, approach, disposition, mentality, mood, opinion, outlook, perspective, pose, 4. bearing; synonyms (n) carriage, demeanor, appearance, attitude, conduct, deportment, direction, manner, respect, aim, comportment, mien, presence, run, way, 5. ratio; synonyms (n) percentage, degree, proportion, measure, scale, rate, extent, fraction, grade, comparison, relationship, amount.
- **відображати** reflect; *synonyms* (v) deliberate, ponder, cogitate, consider, contemplate, meditate, muse, mirror, mull, think, bethink, echo, excogitate, ruminate, shine.

- **відображення 1**. display; *synonyms* (*n*) array, presentation, appearance, screen, demonstration, exhibition, (*v*) exhibit, show, disclose, parade, expose, produce, brandish, flaunt, indicate; *antonym* (*v*) conceal, 2. image; *synonyms* (*n*) figure, picture, fancy, conception, effigy, form, idea, impression, resemblance, design, double, epitome, icon, (*v*) depict, envision, 3. reflection; *synonyms* (*n*) consideration, contemplation, observation, cogitation, deliberation, meditation, musing, reflexion, thought, notion, introspection, image, repercussion, animadversion, echo.
- **BİQO3Ba** appeal; *synonyms* (n) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (v) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; *antonyms* (n) unpleasantness, (v) repel.
- **відокремити** separate; *synonyms* (*adj*) detached, (*v*) detach, divorce, part, insulate, scatter, cut, dissociate, disconnect, discriminate, disjoin, disperse, distinguish, divide; *antonyms* (*adj*) connected, joined, simultaneous, (*v*) unite, merge, mix, combine, fuse, join, link, associate.
- **Відокремлення** separation; *synonyms* (*n*) detachment, disjunction, disunion, division, partition, disconnection, divorce, isolation, parting, rift, seclusion, break, breakup, demarcation, departure; *antonyms* (*n*) amalgamation, closeness, connection, marriage, unification, union, unity.
- **відокремлювати** separate; *synonyms* (*adj*) detached, (*v*) detach, divorce, part, insulate, scatter, cut, dissociate, disconnect, discrete, discriminate, disjoin, disperse, distinguish, divide; *antonyms* (*adj*) connected, joined, simultaneous, (*v*) unite, merge, mix, combine, fuse, join, link, associate.
- **відокремлюватися** separate; *synonyms* (*adj*) detached, (*v*) detach, divorce, part, insulate, scatter, cut, dissociate, disconnect, discriminate, disjoin, disperse, distinguish, divide; *antonyms* (*adj*) connected, joined, simultaneous, (*v*) unite, merge, mix, combine, fuse, join, link, associate.
- відомий 1. known; synonyms (adj) well-known, familiar, conscious, certain, accepted, acknowledged, plain, published, understood, evident, recognized, apparent, aware, common, apprised; antonyms (adj) nameless, unknown, secret, unidentified, 2, famous; synonyms (adi) celebrated, eminent, splendid, distinguished, famed. illustrious, renowned, capital, conspicuous, important, known, notable, notorious, prominent, stunning; antonyms (adj) infamous, ordinary, 3. notorious; synonyms (adi) famous, disreputable, egregious, flagrant, noted, public, scandalous, popular, proverbial, leading, outrageous, (n) errant, (v) ascertained, 4. prominent; synonyms (adj) great, noticeable, obvious, outstanding, salient, striking, big, high, marked, dominant, momentous, predominant, influential, manifest, (n) bold; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, minor, 5. noted; synonyms (adj) glorious, noble, excellent, distingue.
- **Bigomocti** data; *synonyms* (*n*) information, facts, details, evidence, fact, figures, file, material, postulate, proof.
- **відомство 1**. department; *synonyms* (n) bureau, compartment, area, agency, class, faculty, section, arm, branch, division, domain, field, line, office, part, 2.

- office; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, duty, function, position, commission, appointment, authority, berth, job, place, post, engagement, employment, location, establishment.
- **відомчий** departmental; *synonyms* (*adj*) administrative, authoritative, (*v*) imperative, overruling, peremptory, executive, official.
- **відпадання** disruption; *synonyms* (*n*) breakdown, break, dislocation, rupture, breach, disturbance, interruption, disintegration, collapse, gap, turmoil, commotion, disorganization, (*v*) split, (*adj*) diruption.
- **Відплата** reward; *synonyms* (n) pay, return, guerdon, payment, wage, bribe, fee, premium, award, (v) recompense, compensation, meed, prize, repay, requite; *antonym* (v) punish.
- **Відплачувати** герау; *synonyms* (*v*) pay, recompense, reimburse, reward, compensate, refund, render, redeem, remunerate, requite, return, give, replace, restore, (*n*) answer
- **Відпливати** sail; *synonyms* (n) float, voyage, canvas, sheet, plane, ship, (v) cruise, navigate, run, glide, cross, drift, sweep, travel, fly.
- відповідальний 1. responsible; synonyms (adj) accountable, reliable, dependable, amenable, trustworthy, culpable, faithful, responsive, conscientious, creditworthy, guilty, (v) answerable, liable, bound; antonyms (adj) irresponsible, innocent, 2. accountable; synonym (adj) responsible, 3. liable; synonyms (adj) apt, disposed, exposed, inclined, likely, subject, vulnerable, given, obnoxious, susceptible, blameworthy; antonym (adj) exempt.
- **відповідальність 1**. responsibility; *synonyms* (*n*) accountability, duty, care, charge, affair, fault, job, liability, obdigation, onus, reliability, load, commitment, dependability, burden, **2**. liability; *synonyms* (*n*) debt, trust, blame, disadvantage, arrears, encumbrance, indebtedness, responsibility, exposure, susceptibility, accountableness, answerability, jeopardy; *antonym* (*n*) asset, **3**. blame; *synonyms* (*v*) accuse, arraign, censure, reprimand, reproach, chide, rebuke, attribute, criticize, (*n*) attack, rap, accusation, allegation, condemnation, inculpation; *antonyms* (*v*) pardon, absolve, praise, **4**. accountability; *synonym* (*n*) answerableness.
- **відповідати 1**. respond; *synonyms* (*v*) answer, reply, return, counter, rejoin, echo, react, retort, acknowledge, say, (*adj*) correspond, tally, (*n*) response; *antonym* (*v*) ignore, **2**. reply; *synonyms* (*n*) rejoinder, reaction, repay, replication, defense, repartee, comeback, (*v*) respond; *antonym* (*v*) question, **3**. answer; *synonyms* (*n*) solution, riposte, key, explanation, (*v*) resolve, serve, agree, do, suffice, suit, refute, accord, fill, fit, (*adj*) pay; *antonym* (*v*) ask.
- **відповідач** defendant; *synonyms* (*n*) accused, litigant, party, plaintiff, prisoner, suspect, defender, perpetrator, (*adi*) defensive.
- **відповідний 1**. appropriate; *synonyms* (*adj*) pertinent, proper, true, agreeable, apposite, apt, congruous, correct, particular, peculiar, right, (*v*) annex, allocate, adopt, seize; *antonyms* (*adj*) inappropriate, unsuitable, unrelated, untimely, wrong, (*v*) surrender, **2**. adequate; *synonyms* (*adj*) sufficient, acceptable, enough, condign, effectual, passable, satisfactory, competent, decent,

equal, fair, fit, full, good, qualified; antonyms (adj) inadequate, insufficient, unsatisfactory, 3. worthy; synonyms (adj) noble, estimable, meritorious, respectable, valuable, deserving, honorable, suitable, virtuous, worthwhile, admirable, desirable, (n) celebrity, notable, personage; antonym (adj) unworthy, 4. corresponding; synonyms (adj) congruent, comparable, same, similar, commensurate, consonant, alike, analogous, correspondent, equivalent, like, matching, parallel, complementary, proportionate; antonym (adj) different, 5. fit; synonyms (v) agree, accommodate, meet, suit, adapt, correspond, square, accord, dress, (adi) decorous, applicable, appropriate, (n) adjust, convulsion, attack; antonyms (adj) unfit, unwell, 6. applicable; synonyms (adj) relevant, germane, applicative, applicatory, apropos, available, fitting, relative, admissible, (n) felicitous, happy; antonym (adj) irrelevant, 7. apt; synonyms (adj) adroit, intelligent, able, adequate, convenient, dexterous, efficient, ready, smart, clever, deft, disposed, expert, just, liable, 8. relevant; synonyms (adj) important, material, crucial, related, pat, significant, 9. relative; synonyms (adj) comparative, proportional, dependent, (n) relation, brother, connection, congenator, congener, (v) kinsman; antonym (adj) absolute, 10. suitable; synonyms (adj) eligible, due, fitted, befitting, compatible, expedient, opportune, seemly, comfortable, congenial, harmonious, pleasing, timely, (n) seasonable, (v) becoming; antonym (adj) improper, 11. proper; synonyms (adj) legitimate, modest, neat, exact, formal, honest, individual, moral, reasonable, valid, accurate, justifiable, equitable, ethical, permissible; antonyms (adj) unseemly, rude.

- **ΒἰΩΠΟΒΙζΗΙĊΤЬ** 1. correspondence; *synonyms* (n) conformity, accord, agreement, communication, connection, coincidence, concord, affinity, analogy, congruity, equality, equivalence, parallel, parallelism, resemblance; *antonyms* (n) difference, asymmetry, dissimilarity, 2. truth; *synonyms* (n) exactness, reality, actuality, sincerity, correctness, fact, fidelity, verity, genuineness, accuracy, certainty, faithfulness, honesty, precision, authenticity; *antonyms* (n) untruth, dishonesty, fabrication, falsehood, fiction, lie.
- відповідно 1. accordingly; synonyms (adv) consequently, therefore, thus, ergo, so, then, 2. respectively; synonyms (adv) each, severally, individually, singly, apiece, accordingly, independently, mutually, specifically, partially, particularly, regardfully, relatively, 3. thereafter; synonyms (adv) thenceforth, next, afterward, thence, later, absent, elsewhere, following, (adj) after.
- **відповідь 1**. answer; *synonyms* (*n*) reply, respond, retort, return, solution, defense, echo, (*v*) counter, resolve, serve, acknowledge, agree, correspond, do, (*adj*) рау; *antonyms* (*v*) question, ask, **2**. response; *synonyms* (*n*) answer, reaction, reception, effect, chant, chaunt, comeback, hymn, (*v*) rejoinder, endurance, experience, (*adj*) sympathy, cordiality, fraternization, rapprochement, **3**. reply; *synonyms* (*n*) response, repay, replication, repartee, (*v*) react, rejoin, say.
- **відповісти 1**. respond; *synonyms* (*v*) answer, reply, return, counter, rejoin, echo, react, retort, acknowledge,

- say, (adj) correspond, tally, (n) response; antonym (v) ignore, 2. reply; synonyms (n) rejoinder, reaction, repay, replication, defense, repartee, comeback, (v) respond; antonym (v) question.
- **Відпочивати** rest; *synonyms* (n) remnant, repose, balance, pause, recess, relaxation, residue, leisure, break, (v) nap, remain, sleep, ease, lie, (adj) remainder; antonym (v) work.
- **відпочинок 1.** rest; *synonyms* (*n*) remnant, repose, balance, pause, recess, relaxation, residue, leisure, break, (*v*) nap, remain, sleep, ease, lie, (*adj*) remainder; *antonym* (*v*) work, **2.** recreation; *synonyms* (*n*) amusement, entertainment, distraction, pastime, play, diversion, merriment, fun, game, sport, pleasure, refreshment, respite, rest, athletics, **3.** relaxation; *synonyms* (*n*) recreation, comfort, quiet, remission, peace, hobby, relax, abatement, breather, laxation, relief, slackening, easiness. (*adj*) atony, debility.
- **Відпочити** rest; *synonyms* (*n*) remnant, repose, balance, pause, recess, relaxation, residue, leisure, break, (*v*) nap, remain, sleep, ease, lie, (*adj*) remainder; *antonym* (*v*) work.
- **відправка** expedition; *synonyms* (n) excursion, dispatch, journey, travel, celerity, exploration, haste, outing, quest, readiness, speed, tour, trip, (v) campaign, crusade.
- **відправляти** send; *synonyms* (*v*) despatch, pass, convey, deliver, dispatch, forward, give, mail, post, carry, divert, project, beam, cast, channel.
- **Відпрацьований** waste; *synonyms* (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (*adj*) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; *antonyms* (v) conserve, save.
- **Відпускати 1**. dismiss; *synonyms* (*v*) discharge, cashier, cast, disband, discard, drop, bounce, can, cease, dispatch, banish, disallow, discount, displace, dissolve; *antonyms* (*v*) hire, employ, **2**. release; *synonyms* (*n*) issue, liberation, departure, ransom, (*v*) exempt, free, liberate, pardon, absolve, acquit, deliver, dismiss, excuse, exonerate, (*adj*) disengage; *antonyms* (*n*) imprisonment, abduction, custody, involvement, preservation, (*v*) capture, confine, imprison, arrest, catch.
- **ΒΙΛΠΥCΤΚΑ 1.** leave; *synonyms* (*v*) depart, forsake, go, abandon, desert, quit, escape, flee, lead, (*n*) furlough, holiday, permission, permit, break, (*adj*) empty; *antonyms* (*v*) arrive, enter, stay, remain, approach, change, come, **2.** holiday; *synonyms* (*n*) feast, festival, sabbath, leisure, recess, rest, (*v*) vacation, fete, (*adj*) festive.
- Biдpa3a 1. horror; synonyms (n) awe, abomination, abhorrence, dismay, fear, alarm, fright, repulsion, revulsion, anxiety, apprehension, atrocity, aversion, (adj) dread, terror; antonym (n) pleasantness, 2. disgust; synonyms (n) antipathy, detestation, dislike, repugnance, hate, hatred, horror, loathing, nausea, odium, (v) sicken, nauseate, shock, distaste, displease; antonyms (n) attraction, love, (v) delight, attract, 3. sickness; synonyms (n) illness, indisposition, complaint, malady, qualm, distemper, disgust, infirmity, affliction, ill, derangement, (v) disease, disorder, ailment.

- відразу 1. immediately (негайно); synonyms (adv) directly, forthwith, instantly, now, right, direct, readily, instantaneously, presently, rapidly, incontinently, momentarily, summarily, exactly, (adj) instanter; antonyms (adv) later, slowly, 2. instantly; synonyms (adv) immediately, promptly, outright, quickly, soon, straight, straightaway, suddenly; antonym (adv) eventually, 3. direct; synonyms (adj) blunt, immediate, (v) aim, channel, conduct, address, charge, control, dictate, head, administer, guide, lead, level, (n) command; antonyms (adj) indirect, roundabout, circuitous, oblique, second-hand, sideways, unplanned, (v) request.
- **Відрізати** nick; *synonyms* (*n*) notch, mark, cut, chip, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (*v*) dent, steal, hack, indent.
- **відрізнити** distinguish; *synonyms* (*v*) discern, discriminate, describe, know, perceive, discover, descry, behold, characterize, classify, detect, difference, differentiate, identify, recognize; *antonym* (*v*) confuse.
- **відрізняти** distinguish; *synonyms* (*v*) discern, discriminate, describe, know, perceive, discover, descry, behold, characterize, classify, detect, difference, differentiate, identify, recognize; *antonym* (*v*) confuse.
- відрізнятися 1. differ; synonyms (v) dissent, disagree, contradict, clash, deviate, diverge, depart, conflict, vary, dispute, diversify, quarrel, ablude; antonyms (v) agree, concur, conform, correspond, 2. Vary; synonyms (v) alter, change, differ, modify, alternate, modulate, fluctuate, shift, variegate, contrast, exchange, turn, range, interchange, amend.
- **Βἰχρὶ3οκ** section; *synonyms* (n) division, part, portion, compartment, percentage, piece, class, branch, chapter, clause, department, episode, partition, region, (ν) segment.
- **Biдpo** bucket; *synonyms* (*n*) tub, bucketful, container, pail, scoop, mug, pipkin, skeel, tankard, pan, can, grab, skip, boat, car.
- **відродження 1**. revival; *synonyms* (*n*) recovery, renewal, restoration, resurgence, resurrection, rally, regeneration, renaissance, revitalization, rebirth, reinstatement, reprint, reproduction, return, revivification; *antonyms* (*n*) decline, disappearance, **2**. renaissance; *synonyms* (*n*) revival, renascence, instauration, conversion, metempsychosis, reincarnation, reappearance, rejuvenation, repair.
- **відрядження** assignment; *synonyms* (*n*) allocation, allotment, appointment, assigning, mission, apportionment, stint, assignation, business, chore, charge, commission, consignment, designation, duty.
- **Βἰζείκ** compartment; *synonyms* (n) cell, division, cabin, cubicle, separation, bay, booth, cubbyhole, (ν) apartment, partition.
- **BİÇCKİK** bound; synonyms (v) leap, border, bounce, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, (n) spring, jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, hop; antonym (adj) free.
- **ΒΙΖΟΟΤΟΚ** 1. interest; synonyms (n) concern, advantage, affair, account, gain, hobby, behalf, eagerness, enthusiasm, sake, (ν) engage, care, benefit, appeal, affect; antonyms (n) indifference, apathy, (ν) bore, 2.

- rate; *synonyms* (*n*) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (*v*) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put, **3**. percent; *synonyms* (*n*) pct, part, portion, share.
- **відставати** drag; *synonyms* (*v*) attract, haul, draw, puff, trail, cart, hale, heave, lug, tow, delay, (*n*) pull, bother, bore, hindrance; *antonym* (*v*) push.
- **ΒἰΑ** Tabκa 1. resignation; *synonyms* (n) capitulation, endurance, patience, renunciation, surrender, acquiescence, submission, compliance, cession, quit, fall, passiveness, **2**. retirement; *synonyms* (n) retreat, resignation, departure, privacy, seclusion, secrecy, withdrawal, recession, solitude, cancellation.
- **відставний 1**. retired; *synonyms* (*v*) covert, (*adj*) private, obscure, emeritus, secluded, secret, sequestered, solitary, lonely, withdrawn, close, superannuated, isolated, old, out, **2**. resigned; *synonyms* (*v*) content, (*adj*) patient, submissive, subdued, yielding, abject, forbearing, passive, pessimistic; *antonyms* (*adj*) resentful, resistant.
- **Відсталий** back; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, backward, (*n*) rear, (*adj*) assist, (*v*) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) face, (*v*) front, oppose, advance.
- **Відстань 1.** distance; *synonyms* (*n*) remove, space, way, gap, aloofness, interval, altitude, measure, period, place, range, (*v*) dissociate, outdistance, outstrip, (*adj*) length; *antonyms* (*n*) nearness, proximity, closeness, intimacy, (*v*) associate, **2.** length (ДОВЖИНА); *synonyms* (*n*) extent, distance, duration, compass, depth, dimension, longness, measurement, size, quantity, degree, breadth, (*v*) expanse, tract, area; *antonyms* (*n*) briefness, shortness, width, **3.** space; *synonyms* (*n*) opening, scope, void, margin, emptiness, latitude, location, room, field, volume, berth, blank, cosmos, leeway, (*v*) separate.
- **BIACTOIOBATH 1.** defend; *synonyms* (*v*) cover, guard, assert, justify, protect, advocate, champion, maintain, shield, support, apologize, hold, preserve, safeguard, shelter; *antonyms* (*v*) attack, prosecute, **2.** assert; *synonyms* (*v*) affirm, allege, claim, declare, say, argue, aver, avow, insist, protest, show, swear, announce, assure, attest; *antonym* (*v*) deny.
- **ΒἰΛCTYΠ** retreat; *synonyms* (n) refuge, resort, asylum, departure, den, lair, privacy, retirement, (v) recede, retire, withdraw, depart, ebb, leave, return; *antonyms* (n) raid, (v) advance.
- **Відступати** 1. retreat; *synonyms* (n) refuge, resort, asylum, departure, den, lair, privacy, retirement, (v) recede, retire, withdraw, depart, ebb, leave, return; *antonyms* (n) raid, (v) advance, 2. back; *synonyms* (adv) before, backward, (n) rear, (adj) assist, (v) support, advocate, endorse, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage, finance; *antonyms* (n) face, (v) front, oppose.
- **ВІДСТУПИТИ** retreat; *synonyms* (*n*) refuge, resort, asylum, departure, den, lair, privacy, retirement, (*v*) recede, retire, withdraw, depart, ebb, leave, return; *antonyms* (*n*) raid, (*v*) advance.
- **відсутній 1**. absent; *synonyms* (*adj*) off, wanting, inattentive, absentminded, abstracted, faraway, lost, missing, nonexistent, out, preoccupied, (*adv*) away;

- antonym (adj) present, 2. missing; synonyms (adj) lacking, absent, gone, deficient, misplaced.
- **ΒἰΛΕΥΤΗΙCTЬ 1.** absence; *synonyms* (*n*) absenteeism, dearth, default, deficiency, lack, want, nonattendance, paucity, scarcity, shortage; *antonyms* (*n*) presence, attendance, **2.** lack; *synonyms* (*n*) need, absence, defect, deficit, famine, insufficiency, poverty, shortcoming, inadequacy, drought, (*v*) destitution, fail, fault, demand, failure; *antonyms* (*n*) abundance, excess, provision, (*v*) have, **3.** miss; *synonyms* (*v*) lose, jump, omit, overlook, long, drop, escape, neglect, skip, (*n*) maid, girl, fille, missy, wench, (*adf*) pretermit; *antonym* (*v*) perceive.
- **відтворення** reproduction; *synonyms* (*n*) replica, propagation, duplicate, breeding, copy, generation, copying, facsimile, procreation, replication, reappearance, image, duplication, (*adj*) fake, imitation; *antonym* (*adj*) genuine.
- **відтворювальний** reproductive; *synonyms* (*adj*) generative, procreative, sexual, productive, prolific, female, reproductory, virile.
- **Відтінок** shade; *synonyms* (*n*) screen, tinge, color, ghost, hue, blind, cloud, apparition, conceal, darkness, dye, (*v*) darken, shadow, tint, cover; *antonyms* (*n*) light, brightness.
- **Відточений** neat; *synonyms* (*adj*) adroit, elegant, clear, natty, tidy, graceful, dainty, clean, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, methodical, nifty, (v) compact; *antonyms* (*adj*) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered.
- відхилення 1. diversion; synonyms (n) amusement, deviation, distraction, entertainment, pastime, detour, digression, fun, recreation, sport, aberration, deflection, deflexion, game, hobby, 2. deviation; synonyms (n) change, difference, diversion, variation, abnormality, alteration, anomaly, departure, deviance, divergence, variance, inclination, aberrance, discrepancy, error; antonym (n) normality, 3. variation; synonyms (n) mutation, fluctuation, disagreement, dissimilarity, permutation, contrast, distinction, innovation, modification, shift, turn, variant, version, vicissitude, disparity; antonym (n) similarity, 4. departure; synonyms (n) death, exit, leave, depart, parting, going, leaving, passing, takeoff, withdrawal, disappearance, dying, escape, (v) decease, demise; antonyms (n) arrival, appearance, 5. denial; synonyms (n) negation, abnegation, renunciation, repulse, no, abjuration, contradiction, negative, refusal, rejection, forswearing, nay, abandonment, rebuff, rebuttal; antonyms (n) acceptance, affirmation, declaration, admission, confession, 6, rejection; synonyms (n) exclusion. dismissal, denial, exception, disayowal, repudiation, censure, defection, desertion, effusion, ejection, disclaimer, snub, check, emission; antonym (n) approval.
- **ВІДХИЛЯТИ** reject; *synonyms* (v) refuse, decline, deny, disapprove, discard, dismiss, eliminate, exclude, rebuff, abandon, disallow, disown, ignore, renounce, (n) cull; *antonyms* (v) accept, approve, choose, select, acknowledge, grant.
- **відхід 1.** recession; *synonyms* (*n*) decline, depression, fall, niche, recess, slump, corner, receding, **2**.

- withdrawal; *synonyms* (n) removal, retirement, retreat, secession, departure, defection, desertion, recession, backdown, retraction, repeal, recall, exit, exodus, (v) subtraction, 3. departure; *synonyms* (n) death, leave, depart, deviation, divergence, parting, aberration, digression, going, leaving, passing, takeoff, variation, (v) decease, demise; *antonyms* (n) arrival, appearance.
- **Відходи** waste; *synonyms* (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; *antonyms* (v) conserve, save.
- **відходити** retreat; *synonyms* (n) refuge, resort, asylum, departure, den, lair, privacy, retirement, (v) recede, retire, withdraw, depart, ebb, leave, return; *antonyms* (n) raid, (v) advance
- **відчай** despair; *synonyms* (*n*) desolation, disappointment, dejection, depression, desperation, discouragement, dismay, gloom, melancholy, pessimism, anguish, despondency, distress, hopelessness, sorrow; *antonyms* (*n*) happiness, hopefulness, expectation, joy, (*v*) hope.
- **відчайдушний** desperate; *synonyms* (*adj*) hopeless, despairing, dire, critical, awful, desolate, despondent, drastic, furious, grave, miserable, rank, reckless, serious, (*y*) forlorn; *antonym* (*adj*) hopeful.
- **відчинений** open (відкритий); *synonyms* (*adj*) frank, obvious, artless, exposed, free, honest, bare, forthright, guileless, ingenuous, naked, (v) expand, give, (n) candid, clear; *antonyms* (*adj*) devious, secretive, concealed, furtive, hidden, limited, repressive, reserved, restricted, secret, blocked, cautious, (v) shut, end, (*tr* v) close.
- **Відчинити** open (відкритий); *synonyms* (*adj*) frank, obvious, artless, exposed, free, honest, bare, forthright, guileless, ingenuous, naked, (*v*) expand, give, (*n*) candid, clear; *antonyms* (*adj*) devious, secretive, concealed, furtive, hidden, limited, repressive, reserved, restricted, secret, blocked, cautious, (*v*) shut, end, (*tr v*) close.
- **Відчиняти** open (відкритий); *synonyms* (*adj*) frank, obvious, artless, exposed, free, honest, bare, forthright, guileless, ingenuous, naked, (*v*) expand, give, (*n*) candid, clear; *antonyms* (*adj*) devious, secretive, concealed, furtive, hidden, limited, repressive, reserved, restricted, secret, blocked, cautious, (*v*) shut, end, (*tr v*) close.
- **Відчувати 1**. feel; *synonyms* (*v*) experience, sense, consider, finger, handle, believe, deem, endure, find, (*n*) touch, atmosphere, feeling, sound, texture, air; *antonym* (*v*) observe, **2**. sense; *synonyms* (*n*) intelligence, perception, meaning, sensation, logic, awareness, idea, impression, notion, reason, understanding, (*v*) feel, intellect, mind, perceive; *antonyms* (*n*) garbage, ludicrousness, nonsense, stupidity, foolishness, gibberish, **3**. appreciate; *synonyms* (*v*) esteem, prize, treasure, value, appraise, fathom, acknowledge, admire, apprize, cherish, comprehend, enjoy, estimate, grasp, (*adf*) understand; *antonyms* (*v*) depreciate, scorn.
- **Відчути** sense; *synonyms* (n) intelligence, perception, meaning, sensation, logic, awareness, experience, feeling, idea, impression, notion, (v) feel, intellect, mind, perceive; *antonyms* (n) garbage, ludicrousness, nonsense, stupidity, foolishness, gibberish.
- **відчутний 1**. sensible; *synonyms* (*adj*) reasonable, aware, judicious, perceptible, prudent, rational,

- sagacious, intelligent, sane, wise, appreciable, sage, logical, practical, conscious; *antonyms* (*adj*) foolish, absurd, crazy, idiotic, imprudent, ludicrous, mad, outrageous, reckless, ridiculous, silly, stupid, unreasonable, unwise, harebrained, **2**. tangible; *synonyms* (*adj*) material, substantial, actual, concrete, real, palpable, physical, evident, corporeal, definite, sensible, genuine, adequate, (*n*) applicable, available; *antonym* (*adj*) intangible.
- **відчутно** aloud; *synonyms* (*adv*) loud, loudly, clamorously, clearly, distinctly, intelligibly, obstreperously, plainly, vociferously.
- відчуття 1. feeling; synonyms (n) affection, feel, passion, emotion, atmosphere, belief, hunch, impression, intuition, mood, opinion, sense, sensitivity, sentiment, enthusiasm; *antonyms* (n) numbness, indifference, 2. sense; synonyms (n) intelligence, perception, meaning, sensation, logic, awareness, experience, feeling, idea, notion, reason, understanding, (v) intellect, mind, perceive; antonyms (n) garbage, ludicrousness, nonsense, stupidity, foolishness, gibberish, 3. feel; synonyms (v) consider, finger, handle, believe, deem, endure, find, hold, suffer, suppose, think, (n) touch, sound, texture, air; antonym (v) observe, 4. perception; synonyms (n) apprehension, conception, discernment, insight, comprehension, acumen, image, observation, penetration, taste, cognizance, grasp, concept, detection, appreciation, 5. sensation; synonyms (n) sensibility, thrill, wonder, agitation, stunner, sentience, ace, genius, hit, marvel, miracle, phenomenon, prodigy, smash, (v) inspiration.
- відшкодовувати 1. compensate; synonyms (v) balance, pay, recompense, reimburse, counterbalance, recoup, remunerate, repay, reward, cover, correct, expiate, indemnify, offset, redeem, 2. герау; synonyms (v) compensate, refund, render, requite, return, give, replace, restore, retort, reciprocate, repair, retaliate, revenge, satisfy, (n) answer, 3. supply; synonyms (n) provision, hoard, issue, (v) furnish, stock, afford, fill, store, feed, offer, provide, cater, contribute, deliver, equip.
- **Відшкодування 1.** indemnity; *synonyms* (*n*) amends, compensation, damages, indemnification, pay, redress, reparation, restitution, excuse, exoneration, insurance, quittance, recompense, release, security, **2**. consideration; *synonyms* (*n*) concern, respect, attention, care, reflection, thought, account, cogitation, conception, deliberation, notice, tact, thoughtfulness, (*v*) regard, condition; *antonyms* (*n*) thoughtlessness, impulsiveness, inconsideration, **3**. recovery; *synonyms* (*n*) rally, convalescence, improvement, reclamation, rescue, resurrection, retrieval, cure, deliverance, healing, recuperation, restoration, revival, yield, regeneration; *antonyms* (*n*) decline, loss, return, **4**. repayment; *synonyms* (*n*) payment, refund, remuneration, revenge, rebate, reimbursement, retribution, reward, settlement, (*v*) repay.
- **відшкодувати** compensate; *synonyms* (*v*) balance, pay, recompense, reimburse, counterbalance, recoup, remunerate, repay, reward, cover, correct, expiate, indemnify, offset, redeem.

- **відьма 1**. witch; *synonyms* (*n*) hag, pythoness, enchantress, sorceress, magician, lamia, wizard, augur, (*v*) enchant, bewitch, charm, glamour, hex, jinx, fascinate, **2**. nightmare; *synonyms* (*n*) dream, incubus, fantasy, terror, bugbear, fancy, trial, vision.
- **Bi3** cart; *synonyms* (n) car, handcart, dray, pushcart, waggon, wagon, (ν) carry, haul, drag, bear, take, transfer, convey, draw, transport.
- **BISHT** VISIT; *synonyms* (*n*) chat, sojourn, (*v*) see, frequent, attend, call, tour, view, gossip, haunt, inspect, jaw, impose, inflict, talk.
- **Візитер** visitor; *synonyms* (n) guest, company, tourist, visitant, traveler, inspector, stranger, foreigner, alien, sightseer, arrival, husband, supercargo.
- **візник** carter; *synonyms* (*n*) carrier, coachman, driver, whip, drayman, cartman, charioteer, hauler, postboy, postilion, transporter, mover, shipper.
- **Bi30K** 1. car; *synonyms* (*n*) automobile, auto, carriage, coach, truck, vehicle, tramcar, coupe, jalopy, gondola, machine, motorcar, railcar, limousine, 2. truck; *synonyms* (*n*) traffic, car, cart, trade, van, bogie, cap, crest, motortruck, tub, (*v*) exchange, barter, swap, swop, transport, 3. trolley; *synonyms* (*n*) streetcar, tram, tramway, catch, repetition, ropeway, round, routine, (*v*) airplane, autobus, bus, minivan, motorbike, omnibus, plane.
- **візуальний** visual; *synonyms* (*adj*) visible, graphic, ocular, optic, optical, seeable, artistic, decorative, diagrammatic, drawn, (*n*) visuals, image, picture, design, diagram.
- Biйна 1. war; synonyms (n) combat, battle, fight, warfare, conflict, fighting, antagonism, contest, struggle, opposition, contention, enmity, campaign, (v) clash, (adj) military; antonyms (n) peace, (v) ceasefire, 2. warfare; synonyms (n) war, action, hostility, hostilities.
- **ΒΙΪΚΈΚΟ** army; *synonyms* (*n*) legion, troop, host, battery, battalion, brigade, crowd, flock, force, multitude, service, swarm, war, (*adi*) military, array.
- **військовий** military; *synonyms* (*adj*) martial, militant, warlike, soldierly, militaristic, (*n*) force; *antonym* (*adj*) civilian.
- **Bik 1.** age; *synonyms* (n) period, aeon, day, era, time, cycle, years, antiquity, epoch, eternity, generation, (v) mature, grow, ripen, develop, **2.** century; *synonyms* (n) age, centenary, hundred, centred, millennium, carbon, hecatomb, life, cocain, cocaine, coke, coulomb, lifetime, seniority, snow.
- **Βἰκαριἄ** Vicar; *synonyms* (n) minister, priest, clergyman, parson, pastor, rector, delegate, preacher, regent.
- **BikHo** Window; *synonyms* (*n*) casement, porthole, pane, gap, embrasure, hole, opening, windowpane.
- Bi. 1. beef; synonyms (n) gripe, grumble, moan, grouse, complaint, squawk, fuss, bitch, brawn, flesh, grievance, (v) complain, grouch, groan, bellyache, 2. neat; synonyms (adj) adroit, elegant, clear, natty, tidy, graceful, dainty, clean, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, methodical, nifty, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered.

- **вілла** villa; *synonyms* (n) mansion, cottage, house, accommodation, building, bungalow, cabin, castle, chalet, estate, farmhouse, home, igloo, lodge, manor.
- **вільний 1**. free; synonyms (adj) loose, frank, liberal, (v) clear, exempt, liberate, discharge, excuse, extricate, relieve, disentangle, acquit, deliver, disengage, ease; antonyms (adj) bound, restricted, compelled, confined, imprisoned, repressive, secure, strict, stuck, tangled, attached, busy, (v) confine, block, cage, 2. loose; synonyms (adj) lax, dissolute, licentious, light, vague, detached, immoral, lewd, incoherent, equivocal, (v) relax, release, detach, (n) free, limp; antonyms (adj) tight, close, compressed, dense, taut, compact, wedged, 3. vacant; synonyms (adj) empty, blank, hollow, bare, devoid, idle, unfilled, unoccupied, void, expressionless, deserted, open, vacuous, inane, available; antonyms (adj) full, occupied, 4. spare; synonyms (adj) reserve, slender, excess, save, slight, additional, lean, slim, thin, frugal, gaunt, (v) meager, economize, (n) extra, backup, **5**. open (відкритий); synonyms (adi) obvious, artless, exposed, honest, forthright, guileless, ingenuous, naked, direct, explicit, downright, easy, (v) expand, give, (n) candid; antonyms (adj) devious, secretive, concealed, furtive, hidden, limited, reserved, secret, blocked, cautious, closed, crafty, enigmatic, (v) shut, end, 6. off; synonyms (adv) by, forth, beyond, over, aside, gone, abreast, (adj) away, bad, putrid, remote, down, rotten, wide, (int) out; antonyms (adj) fresh, on.
- **вільність** liberty; *synonyms* (*n*) freedom, immunity, license, independence, leave, autonomy, emancipation, latitude, exemption, permission, privilege, release, scope, familiarity, (*adi*) franchise.
- вільно 1. freely; synonyms (adv) free, frankly, gladly, abundantly, candidly, generously, independently, openly, readily, voluntarily, willingly, happily, (adj) fain, gratis; antonym (adv) reluctantly, 2. loosely; synonyms (adv) slackly, broadly, generally, freely, vaguely, accidentally, approximately, desultorily, dimly, distantly, gayly, hazily, immethodically, imprecisely, indistinctly; antonyms (adv) closely, firmly, tightly, tight, 3. naturally; synonyms (adv) course, innately, obviously, spontaneously, unaffectedly, (int) certainly; antonyms (adv) unnaturally, artificially.
- **ВІЛЬНОДУМНИЙ** liberal; *synonyms* (*adj*) generous, bountiful, free, handsome, abundant, benevolent, big, large, kind, ample, bounteous, broad, charitable, giving, tolerant; *antonyms* (*adj*) strict, oppressive, totalitarian, intolerant, (*n*) conservative.
- **вільшанка** robin; *synonym* (*n*) redbreast. **він** he; *synonyms* (*pron*) cestui, (*n*) male, man, helium.
- **Вінець** crown; *synonyms* (n) top, apex, cover, crest, peak, pinnacle, summit, kingdom, acme, corona, coronal, (v) cap, complete, consummate, culminate.
- **ΒἰΗΟΚ** CTOWN; *synonyms* (n) top, apex, cover, crest, peak, pinnacle, summit, kingdom, acme, corona, coronal, (ν) cap, complete, consummate, culminate.
- **вінчання 1.** wedding; *synonyms* (*n*) marriage, matrimony, nuptial, nuptials, wedlock, (*adj*) bridal, matrimonial; *antonym* (*n*) divorce, **2**. marriage; *synonyms* (*n*) wedding, espousal, union, alliance, coupling, bond, (*v*) match; *antonym* (*n*) separation.

- Bipa 1. faith; synonyms (n) confidence, belief, conviction, trust, credence, credit, assurance, creed, cult, allegiance, dependence, expectation, fidelity, hope, piety; antonym (n) unbelief, 2. belief; synonyms (n) faith, assumption, doctrine, feeling, idea, impression, opinion, supposition, thought, view, dogma, guess, hypothesis, judgment, (v) mind; antonym (n) disbelief, 3. credit; synonyms (n) appreciation, commendation, recognition, reputation, advance, account, acknowledgment, fame, honor, influence, (v) believe, accredit, ascribe, assign, attribute; antonyms (n) cash, (v) debit, discredit.
- Biрити 1. believe; synonyms (v) think, accredit, assume, conceive, consider, guess, reckon, understand, accept, expect, hope, imagine, suppose, (n) belief, trust; antonyms (v) disbelieve, distrust, 2. trust; synonyms (n) charge, confidence, credit, faith, reliance, rely, assurance, cartel, responsibility, dependence, care, office, combine, (v) believe, confide; antonyms (v) doubt, mistrust.
- вірний 1. faithful; synonyms (adi) authentic, correct, close, constant, exact, dependable, devoted, sound, true, unfailing, devout, dutiful, fast, honest, (n) accurate; antonyms (adj) disloyal, false, inaccurate, unfaithful, unreliable, 2. true; synonyms (adj) real, actual, faithful, right, even, straight, truthful, direct, sincere, factual, literal, loyal, precise, (v) square, (n) genuine; antonyms (adj) bogus, untrue, 3. loval; synonyms (adj) unwavering, reliable, steady, obedient, dedicated, liege, observant, patriotic, responsible, staunch, steadfast, trustworthy, trusty, (v) firm, stanch, 4. certain; synonyms (adj) definite, sure, absolute, assured, indisputable, categorical, decisive, fixed, inevitable, infallible, particular, perfect, positive, safe, (v) bound; antonyms (adj) uncertain, doubtful, unsure, questionable, correct (виправляти); synonyms (adj) appropriate. becoming, nice, proper, apt, (v) adjust, amend, castigate, chastise, chasten, better, remedy, straighten, atone, check; antonyms (adj) incorrect, faulty, inappropriate, mistaken, improper, (v) wrong, spoil, 6. sure; synonyms (adj) certain, secure, confident, guaranteed, indubitable, stable, unerring, decided, hard, resolute, incontestable, certes, (adv) certainly, (v) convinced, (int) yes; antonym (adj) hesitant, 7. positive; synonyms (adj) affirmative, explicit, favorable, incontrovertible, peremptory, plus, advantageous, arbitrary, clear, constructive, plain, total, dogmatic, emphatic, assertive; antonyms (adj) negative, derogatory, pessimistic, sad.
- **вірність** 1. allegiance; *synonyms* (*n*) loyalty, dedication, devotion, commitment, faith, faithfulness, constancy, duty, fealty, fidelity, homage; *antonyms* (*n*) disloyalty, sedition, 2. validity; *synonyms* (*n*) force, truth, authority, legitimacy, soundness, certainty, cogency, effect, power, effectiveness, reality, authenticity, vigor, credibility, hardness, 3. faith (віра); *synonyms* (*n*) confidence, belief, conviction, trust, credence, credit, assurance, creed, cult, allegiance, dependence, expectation, hope, piety, reliance; *antonym* (*n*) unbelief, 4. loyalty; *synonyms* (*n*) honesty, integrity, attachment, reliability, support.
- **BipHime** rather; *synonyms* (*adv*) quite, enough, fairly, pretty, moderately, considerably, instead, kinda,

- preferably, relatively, somewhat, comparatively, reasonably, sooner; *antonym* (*adv*) extremely.
- **BipHo** true; *synonyms* (*adj*) real, actual, faithful, right, even, accurate, authentic, correct, exact, honest, straight, truthful, direct, (*v*) square, (*n*) genuine; *antonyms* (*adj*) false, bogus, inaccurate, untrue.
- вірогідний 1. feasible; synonyms (adj) practicable, possible, probable, fit, achievable, available, credible, doable, likely, practical, realizable, viable, attainable, executable, plausible; antonym (adj) impossible, 2. authentic; synonyms (adj) actual, genuine, accurate, real, right, straight, believable, true, trustworthy, valid, unfeigned, unsophisticated, factual, honest, (v) authoritative; antonyms (adj) bogus, fake, unrealistic, 3. probable; synonyms (adj) potential, feasible, hopeful, convincing, specious, conceivable, presumptive, verisimilar, apparent; antonyms (adj) unlikely, improbable.
- **вірогідність** reliability; *synonyms* (*n*) dependability, dependableness, fidelity, loyalty, responsibility, credibility, faithfulness, reliableness, steadiness, trustworthiness, (*adj*) infallibility; *antonyms* (*n*) unreliability, dishonesty, fallibility, lateness.
- **віросповідання 1**. cult; *synonyms* (*n*) craze, persuasion, fad, faith, fashion, rage, religion, sect, denomination, creed, vogue, church, trend, camp, division, **2**. creed; *synonyms* (*n*) belief, conviction, gospel, credo, doctrine, credenda, **3**. profession; *synonyms* (*n*) confession, declaration, employment, occupation, affirmation, calling, career, job, vocation, position, assertion, assurance, avowal, business, craft.
- **віртуальний** virtual; *synonyms* (*adj*) potential, practical, unreal, implicit, comparative, constructive, fake, imitation, pretend, qualified, quasi, replicated, simulated, basic, energizing; *antonym* (*adj*) genuine.
- **вірування** belief; *synonyms* (n) faith, assumption, confidence, doctrine, feeling, idea, impression, opinion, supposition, thought, trust, view, conviction, credence, credit; *antonyms* (n) disbelief, unbelief.
- **BIPYBATU** believe; *synonyms* (*v*) think, accredit, assume, conceive, consider, guess, reckon, understand, accept, expect, hope, imagine, suppose, (*n*) belief, trust; *antonyms* (*v*) disbelieve, distrust.
- **Bipyc** virus; *synonyms* (n) bug, infection, germ, poison, venom, microbe, disease, bacteria, microorganism, pest, plague.
- вірш 1. poem; synonyms (n) song, rhyme, verse, ballad, composition, sonnet, construction, fabrication, from, laughingstock, making, measure, meter, metre, writing,
  2. verse; synonyms (n) poem, poetry, poesy, stanza, strain, clause, paragraph, canto, chapter, count, distich, rhythm, text, (v) poetize; antonym (n) prose.
- **віршований** poetic; *synonyms* (*adj*) poetical, romantic, artistic, beauteous, fanciful, graphic, imaginative, anapestic, beautiful, dactylic, dramatic, emotional, epic, epical, epodic.
- **вірьовка** string; *synonyms* (*n*) chain, file, row, strand, twine, range, cord, filament, rank, series, thread, tie, sequence, (*v*) run, (*adj*) line.

- **Bicim** eight; *synonyms* (n) eighter, eleven, ace, jack, king, knave, nine, octad, octet, octonary, ogdoad, queen, team, ten. (adi) octave.
- вісімдесят eighty; synonym (n) fourscore.
- **BicKi** Whisky; *synonyms* (n) whiskey, (adj) usquebaugh, (ν) rye, highball, peg, rum, schnapps, sherry, sling.
- **Вісник** ambassador (посол); *synonyms* (*n*) agent, delegate, emissary, envoy, messenger, minister, deputy, embassador, herald, representative, diplomat.
- BicTpя 1. edge; synonyms (n) boundary, margin, verge, blade, brink, extremity, advantage, bank, brim, butt, corner, limit, (v) border, bound, hem; antonyms (n) center, (v) middle, 2. peak; synonyms (n) crest, maximum, top, acme, apex, crown, pinnacle, climax, extreme, head, height, mountain, prime, summit, tip; antonyms (n) nadir, base, trough.
- **Bicb** axis; *synonyms* (n) axle, pivot, hinge, center, hub, spindle, stem, pin.
- **вітальня** salon; *synonyms* (*n*) hall, lounge, saloon. **вітати** welcome; *synonyms* (*adj*) acceptable, pleasant,
- agreeable, pleasing, enjoyable, (v) accept, greet, invite, receive, hail, entertain, (n) salute, hospitality, reception, embrace; **antonyms** (adj) unwelcome, unwanted, (v)
- **Birep** wind; *synonyms* (n) air, gust, (v) coil, twist, curl, meander, turn, bend, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll weave.
- **ВІТРИЛО** Sail; *synonyms* (n) float, voyage, canvas, sheet, plane, ship, (v) cruise, navigate, run, glide, cross, drift, sweep, travel, fly.
- **вітрина** window (вікно); *synonyms* (n) casement, porthole, pane, gap, embrasure, hole, opening, windowpane.
- **вітряний** blowing; *synonyms* (*v*) fanning, (*n*) bravado, (*adj*) windy, breezy.
- Bixa pole; synonyms (n) perch, bar, picket, post, rod, support, terminal, axle, beam, axis, extremity, pin, baton, column, pillar.
- **BİЧКО** eye (OKO); *synonyms* (*n*) optic, opinion, peeper, (*v*) behold, see, view, gaze, stare, look, watch, glance, glimpse, examine, eyeball, regard.
- **вічний** eternal; *synonyms* (*adj*) constant, endless, perpetual, ceaseless, continual, everlasting, lasting, aeonian, boundless, deathless, enduring, immortal, unending, ageless, durable; *antonyms* (*adj*) temporary, mortal, short-lived, finite.
- **ΒΙϤΗΙCTL** forever; *synonyms* (*adv*) ever, always, eternally, everlastingly, evermore, continually, interminably, ceaselessly, permanently, (*adj*) eternal, permanent, (*n*) eternity; *antonym* (*adv*) temporarily.
- **Вішалка** rack; *synonyms* (*n*) manger, wrack, bracket, cage, stand, boot, ledge, (*v*) torture, excruciate, torment, afflict, agonize, pain, bedevil, crucify.
- **вішання** hanging; *synonyms* (*n*) dangling, execution, suspension, curtain, (*adj*) pendant, pendent, suspended, pending, pendulous; *antonym* (*adj*) upright.
- **вішати** hang; *synonyms* (*v*) dangle, depend, drape, float, append, cling, decorate, execute, fall, flow, hover, swing, (*n*) suspend, delay, knack.

- **віщувати** divine; *synonyms* (*adj*) beautiful, sacred, wonderful, almighty, blessed, holy, exquisite, splendid, hallowed, celestial, (*v*) anticipate, augur, conjecture, guess, (*n*) clergyman.
- **Віяло** fan; *synonyms* (*n*) admirer, buff, devotee, enthusiast, addict, adherent, afficionado, fiend, follower, advocate, disciple, (*v*) air, winnow, refresh, blow; *antonym* (*n*) detractor.
- віяти 1. blow (дути); synonyms (n) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (v) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (adj) gasp; antonyms (v) calm, save,
  2. breathe (дихати); synonyms (v) blow, exhale, live, subsist, be, emit, exist, imply, rest, whisper, inspire, convey, heave, (n) respire, bespeak.
- B'T3A entrance; *synonyms* (n) admission, access, entry, admittance, arrival, door, doorway, threshold, accession, (v) enchant, captivate, charm, bewitch, enrapture, fascinate; *antonyms* (n) departure, exit, (v) bore.
- **BKa3iBKa** indication; *synonyms* (*n*) clue, evidence, index, designation, direction, mark, forerunner, herald, emblem, gesture, harbinger, hint, reference, cue, allusion.
- вказувати 1. indicate; synonyms (v) denote, direct, augur, betoken, designate, imply, mark, show, foretell, foreshadow, argue, bespeak, bode, demonstrate, evince,
   2. point; synonyms (n) place, grade, peak, nib, edge, aim, article, degree, dot, spot, phase, apex, detail, (v) head, level.
- BKJAA 1. input; synonyms (n) contribution, incoming, data, advice, feed, arousal, comment, expression, foreplay, influence, stimulant, stimulation, stimulus, voice, (v) accredit, 2. holding; synonyms (n) estate, belongings, hold, keeping, claim, capture, interest, occupation, ownership, property, retention, take, tenure, demand, (adj) retaining, 3. deposit; synonyms (n) charge, residue, guarantee, heap, hoard, lees, (v) bank, commit, store, fix, lay, repose, cast, file, leave; antonym (v) withdraw, 4. contribution; synonyms (n) allowance, donation, gift, offering, share, tax, effort, dues, endowment, grant, investment, part, participation, payment, present.
- **вкладати** place; *synonyms* (*n*) position, domicile, office, order, spot, attitude, (*v*) post, arrange, fix, lay, locate, rank, station, deposit, install; *antonym* (*v*) remove.
- **BKJAZHHK** investor; *synonyms* (*n*) banker, capitalist, financier, speculator, backer, benefactor, client, entrepreneur, fan, saver, sponsor, supporter, tycoon, angel, collector.
- включати 1. include; *synonyms* (*v*) hold, comprise, contain, embody, encompass, insert, comprehend, embrace, implicate, involve, number, add, admit, enclose, have; *antonym* (*v*) exclude, 2. involve; *synonyms* (*v*) imply, affect, entail, complicate, demand, engage, envelop, include, tangle, embroil, exact, absorb, ask, concern, (*n*) entangle, 3. put; *synonyms* (*v*) place, fix, lay, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, (*n*) deposit.
- **включаючи** including; *synonyms* (*prep*) plus, (*v*) included, (*conj*) and, (*adv*) also, (*adj*) counting; *antonyms* (*prep*) excluding, without.

- включення 1. inclusion; *synonyms* (*n*) comprehension, implication, incorporation, addition, embodiment, amalgamation, assimilation, belonging, combination, epitome, integration, merger, absorption, attachment, composition; *antonyms* (*n*) exclusion, exception, 2. comprehension; *synonyms* (*n*) apprehension, conception, grasp, inclusion, intelligence, knowledge, understanding, wit, capacity, familiarity, acumen, appreciation, discernment, insight, notion; *antonyms* (*n*) misunderstanding, incomprehension.
- **ΒΚΡΙΒΑΤΗ** COVET; *synonyms* (*v*) coat, conceal, top, bury, cloak, (*n*) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield; *antonyms* (*v*) reveal, expose, uncover.
- **BKPUTTЯ** coping; *synonyms* (n) cope, gable, header, layer, lintel, transfer.
- влада 1. authority; synonyms (n) ascendancy, command, sanction, administration, authorization, dominance, domination, hold, judge, power, professional, rule, warrant, lordship, agency, 2. power; synonyms (n) force, ability, potency, authority, control, energy, intensity, strength, effectiveness, effect, (v) influence, might, dominion, faculty, capacity; antonyms (n) powerlessness, helplessness, weakness, 3. hold; synonyms (v) keep, detain, endure, adhere, bear, comprise, contain, entertain, have, arrest, carry, (n) grasp, grip, clasp, clutch; antonym (v) release, 4. domination; synonyms (n) ascendency, mastery, superiority, supremacy, jurisdiction, government, subjugation, tyranny, oppression, 5. grip; synonyms (n) handle, bag, clench, clinch, clutches, clamp, (v) catch, cling, apprehend, embrace, fascinate, grab, grapple, gripe, captivate; antonym (v) bore, 6. faculty; synonyms (n) aptitude, capability, endowment, bent, facility, staff, flair, efficiency, aptness, competence, dexterity, expertness, (adj) cleverness, talent, (v) gift; antonym (n) inability, 7. arm; synonyms (n) branch, wing, bay, department, division, limb, offshoot, section, sleeve, weapon, endow, (v) equip, furnish, outfit, provide; antonym (v) disarm.
- **влади** authority (влада); *synonyms* (*n*) ascendancy, command, sanction, administration, authorization, dominance, domination, hold, judge, power, professional, rule, warrant, lordship, agency.
- **владний** authoritative; *synonyms* (*adj*) official, absolute, authoritarian, authorized, commanding, imperious, influential, magistral, powerful, authorised, certain, definitive, dictatorial, (*n*) authentic, (*v*) departmental; *antonym* (*adj*) informal.
- **BJacHe** properly; *synonyms* (*adv*) duly, correctly, exactly, neatly, appropriately, decently, aright, decent, fitly, fittingly, precisely, right, well, aptly, fairly.
- **власний 1**. own; *synonyms* (*v*) acknowledge, admit, have, concede, allow, grant, hold, possess, confess, get, accept, avow, enjoy, (*adj*) individual, proper, **2**. proper; *synonyms* (*adj*) appropriate, correct, due, decent, fit, just, agreeable, apt, becoming, befitting, decorous, fitting, legitimate, modest, right; *antonyms* (*adj*) improper, inappropriate, unseemly, wrong, rude.
- **власник 1**. owner; *synonyms* (n) master, proprietor, possessor, holder, landholder, landowner, boss, landlord,

- employer, occupant, host, manager; antonym (n) tenant, 2. proprietor; synonym (n) owner, 3. keeper; synonyms (n) custodian, curator, guardian, guard, warden, warder, caretaker, protector, steward, watchman, custos, 4. holder; synonyms (n) bearer, case, stand, container, rack, handle, carrier, bracket, support, vessel, 5. master; synonyms (n) captain, instructor, head, leader, gentleman, (v) conquer, control, command, defeat, dominate, (adj) chief, original, ace, expert, proficient.
- власність 1. property; synonyms (n) characteristic, capital, peculiarity, feature, belongings, character, asset, estate, goods, nature, place, wealth, (adj) attribute, quality, (v) possession, 2. ownership; synonyms (n) control, proprietorship, occupancy, tenure, title, hold, (adj) property, claim, right.
- властивий 1. inherent; synonyms (adj) congenital, inborn, inbred, intrinsic, essential, immanent, innate, instinctive, native, born, constitutional, fundamental, hereditary, inbuilt, internal; antonym (adj) superficial, 2. proper; synonyms (adj) appropriate, correct, due, decent, fit, just, agreeable, apt, becoming, befitting, decorous, fitting, legitimate, modest, right; antonyms (adj) improper, inappropriate, unseemly, wrong, rude, 3. appropriate (відповідний); synonyms (adj) pertinent, proper, true, apposite, congruous, particular, peculiar, special, suitable, applicable, (v) annex, allocate, adopt, seize, apply; antonyms (adj) unsuitable, unrelated, untimely, (v) surrender, 4. incident; synonyms (n) event, fact, adventure, case, circumstance, episode, experience, happening, instance, occasion, occurrence, affair, contingency, (adi) attendant, concomitant.
- властивість 1. habit; synonyms (n) custom, clothing, attire, character, convention, dress, garb, practice, ritual. use, addiction, clothes, disposition, apparel, constitution, 2. character: synonyms (n) kind, nature, note, part. quality, role, type, brand, description, eccentric, spirit, tone, standing, atmosphere, attitude, 3. affinity; synonyms (n) sympathy, analogy, alliance, bond, kindred, propinquity, rapport, relation, relationship, semblance, penchant, agreement, attachment, conformity, connection, 4. property; synonyms (n) characteristic, capital, peculiarity, feature, belongings, asset, estate, goods, place, wealth, substance, faculty, thing, (adj) attribute, (v) possession, 5. quality; synonyms (n) class, condition, grade, distinction, mark, caliber, worth, value, goodness, excellence, ability, calibre, degree, endowment, lineament; antonym (adj)
- BJAIIITOBYBATH 1. arrange; synonyms (v) adjust, appoint, dress, order, set, settle, pack, adapt, agree, classify, compose, decorate, do, engineer, fix; antonyms (v) disturb, disarrange, 2. do; synonyms (v) act, cheat, commit, accomplish, complete, conduct, perform, achieve, make, practice, defraud, answer, arrange, (n) function, occasion; antonyms (v) neglect, unmake, 3. establish; synonyms (v) confirm, erect, prove, base, build, constitute, demonstrate, ascertain, create, determine, found, institute, begin, certify, construct; antonyms (v) disprove, abolish, terminate, 4. organize; synonyms (v) establish, coordinate, devise, direct, form,

- regulate, orchestrate, organise, plan, prepare, systematize, unionize, categorize, lay, tabulate; *antonym* (*v*) disorganize.
- **BJAILTOBYBATUCS** settle; *synonyms* (v) fix, place, clarify, establish, pay, regulate, resolve, set, adjudicate, adjust, agree, conclude, decide, determine, (adj) confirm.
- **ВЛУЧНІСТЬ** precision; *synonyms* (n) accuracy, correctness, exactness, accurateness, preciseness, fidelity, definiteness, delicacy, exactitude, meticulousness, nicety, truth, clarity, attention, (adj) precise; antonyms (n) inaccuracy, vagueness, ambiguity, imprecision.
- BMICT 1. contents; synonyms (n) substance, matter, inside, list, synopsis, volume, cargo, conspectus, 2. furniture; synonyms (n) equipment, appointments, goods, fitting, movable, thing, movables, upholstery, apparatus, apparel, commodity, appurtenances, attire, (v) stuff, garniture, 3. content; synonyms (n) capacity, contentment, meaning, subject, contentedness, happiness, (adj) contented, happy, fulfilled, (v) appease, please, satisfy, suffice, delight, gratify; antonyms (adj) tormented, unhappy, discontented, dissatisfied, rebellious, (v) discontent, upset.
- **вмістилище** container; *synonyms* (*n*) box, jar, package, basket, carton, cylinder, envelope, pan, pot, vessel, bin, parcel, cistern, barrel, bottle.
- вміщати admit (допускати); synonyms (v) acknowledge, concede, accede, grant, affirm, confess, include, permit, take, appreciate, welcome, accommodate, adjudge, (n) allow, (phr) accept; antonyms (v) deny, exclude, reject.
- **BMIHLYBATH** hold; *synonyms* (v) keep, detain, endure, adhere, bear, comprise, contain, entertain, have, arrest, carry, (n) grasp, grip, clasp, clutch; *antonym* (v) release.
- BHECOK 1. deposit; *synonyms* (n) charge, residue, guarantee, heap, hoard, lees, (v) bank, commit, store, fix, lay, repose, cast, file, leave; *antonym* (v) withdraw, 2. contribution; *synonyms* (n) allowance, donation, gift, offering, share, tax, effort, dues, endowment, grant, investment, part, participation, payment, present, 3. fee; *synonyms* (n) commission, compensation, premium, consideration, due, expense, price, salary, toll, wage, cost, duty, excise, fees, (v) tip.
- внизу 1. downstairs; synonyms (adv) down, beneath, below, downward, downhill, (n) floor, (adj) downstair; antonym (adv) upstairs, 2. below; synonyms (adv) under, infra, downstairs, (prep) underneath, (adj) low, after; antonyms (prep) above, over, 3. underneath; synonyms (n) bottom, (adj) inferior.
- **ВНОСИТИ** 1. contribute; *synonyms* (*v*) conduce, bestow, bring, administer, aid, impart, provide, supply, tend, afford, endow, advance, assist, donate, give, 2. introduce; *synonyms* (*v*) insert, interject, inject, acquaint, enter, exhibit, implant, inaugurate, infuse, initiate, precede, present, instill, interpose, broach; *antonym* (*v*) end.
- **BHO4i** night; *synonyms* (n) dark, evening, dusk, darkness, nighttime, twilight, (adj) nocturnal; *antonyms* (n) day, light.

- внутрішній 1. internal; synonyms (adj) interior, domestic, inner, inside, home, intimate, inward, national, inherent, intrinsic, intestine, innermost, entrails, familiar, inland; antonyms (adj) external, foreign, 2. inner; synonyms (adj) internal, central, mental, middle; antonym (adj) outer, 3. interior; synonyms (adj) midland, indoor, private, secret, upcountry, (n) center, bosom, core, heart, midst; antonyms (n) outside, exterior, shore, shoreline, 4. inside; synonyms (adv) indoors, inwardly, within, (n) stomach, contents, (adj) privileged; antonym (adj) free, 5. inland; synonyms (adj) native, inlandish, mediterraneous, 6. domestic; synonyms (adj) tame, civil, household, domesticated, family, indigenous, (n) homely, maid, servant, retainer, servitor; antonym (adj) wild.
- **вовна 1.** wool; *synonyms* (*n*) fleece, fur, coat, hair, woolen, woollen, yarn, fiber, pelt, sheepskin, strand, string, thread, hide, mane, **2**. hair (волосся); *synonyms* (*n*) fuzz, down, hairbreadth, haircloth, locks, pile, coiffure, (*adj*) brush, clipping, driblet.
- **ВОГКИЙ** 1. damp; *synonyms* (*adj*) moist, muggy, clammy, cool, dank, humid, (*v*) break, check, chill, deaden, benumb, (*n*) wet, dampness, moisture, clamminess; *antonyms* (*adj*) dry, (*n*) dryness, **2**. moist; *synonyms* (*adj*) damp, dampish, soggy, wettish, juicy, sodden, sticky, watery, dripping, marshy, succulent, sweaty, **3**. raw; *synonyms* (*adj*) crude, fresh, immature, bleak, coarse, cutting, green, piercing, sore, cold, biting, chilly, inclement, inexperienced, naked; *antonyms* (*adj*) refined, cooked.
- **вогонь** fire; *synonyms* (n) discharge, ardor, conflagration, explode, fervor, flame, (v) excite, eject, blaze, dismiss, ignite, kindle, expel, animate, arouse; *antonym* (v) hire.
- **BO**Λ**a** Water; *synonyms* (n) urine, moisture, juice, liquor, crystal, glass, lymph, pee, piddle, (ν) irrigate, moisten, wet, soak, dampen, dilute.
- **водень** hydrogen; *synonyms* (*n*) butane, diacetylmorphine, heroin, horse, hydrogenium, propane, junk, scag, shit, smack.
- **водити 1**. conduct; *synonyms* (*n*) behavior, administration, manage, demeanor, lead, performance, (*v*) act, bring, direct, administer, carriage, acquit, bearing, carry, comport, **2**. drive; *synonyms* (*n*) ride, force, campaign, crusade, thrust, cause, ambition, (*v*) push, actuate, chase, compel, urge, coerce, beat, constrain; *antonyms* (*n*) apathy, inertia, **3**. lead (СВИНЕЦЬ); *synonyms* (*v*) head, guide, conduct, contribute, chair, conduce, control, go, govern, convey, give, command, dispose, (*n*) clue, advantage; *antonym* (*v*) follow.
- **водій** driver; *synonyms* (n) coachman, postboy, club, chaser, commuter, hoistman, pursuer, spanker.
- **ВОДНИЙ** water (ВОДа); *synonyms* (n) urine, moisture, juice, liquor, crystal, glass, lymph, pee, piddle, (v) irrigate, moisten, wet, soak, dampen, dilute.
- **вододіл 1.** divide; *synonyms* (*v*) cut, distribute, part, dissociate, apportion, detach, disconnect, dismember, dispense, separate, share, split, deal, distinguish, (*n*) break; *antonyms* (*v*) unite, join, **2.** ridge; *synonyms* (*n*) crest, ledge, bank, hill, shelf, dune, swelling, peak,

- projection, ridgepole, wrinkle, button, peg, (v) crease, fold
- **водойма** basin; *synonyms* (*n*) bowl, pot, depression, dock, hollow, tank, washbasin, washbowl, basinful, cavity, cup, lavatory, pool, sink, washstand.
- **водоймище** pond; *synonyms* (*n*) lake, mere, pool, loch, plash, reservoir, sea, tank, broad, lough.
- **водоспад** shoot; *synonyms* (*v*) bud, discharge, dart, dash, drive, flash, hunt, send, fire, germinate, grow, (*n*) scion, branch, sprout, chute.
- водосховище reservoir; *synonyms* (n) cistern, fountain, well, lake, store, bank, hoard, reserve, stock, supply, tank
- **ВОДЯНИЙ** Water (ВОДа); *synonyms* (*n*) urine, moisture, juice, liquor, crystal, glass, lymph, pee, piddle, (*v*) irrigate, moisten, wet, soak, dampen, dilute.
- **воєнний** military; *synonyms* (*adj*) martial, militant, warlike, soldierly, militaristic, (*n*) force; *antonym* (*adj*) civilian
- **вождь** leader; *synonyms* (*n*) chief, guide, boss, captain, director, head, chieftain, commander, conductor, administrator, lead, principal, hero, executive, superior; *antonyms* (*n*) follower, straggler.
- **BO3HTU 1**. carry; *synonyms* (*v*) bear, bring, convey, conduct, take, acquit, behave, accept, comport, hold, pack, transport, load, assume, admit, **2**. transport; *synonyms* (*n*) rapture, transportation, (*v*) transfer, transmit, carry, delight, enrapture, exile, banish, enchant, ferry, ravish, send, entrance, fetch; *antonyms* (*v*) disenchant, remain.
- **BOKAJICT** musician; *synonyms* (*n*) player, instrumentalist, minstrel, singer, actor, artiste, virtuoso.
- **вокальний** vocal; *synonyms* (*adj*) oral, spoken, unwritten, outspoken, sonant, sonorous, vowel, eloquent, instrumental, sung; *antonym* (*adj*) quiet.
- **ВОКЗАЛ** station (станція); *synonyms* (*n*) rank, position, seat, standing, base, depot, (*v*) place, locate, post, stand, lay, order, put, set, site.
- **волан** bird; *synonyms* (*n*) birdie, chick, fowl, girl, wench, hiss, shuttlecock, insect, mollusk, reptile, shellfish, worm, person, biddy, (*y*) birdwatch.
- вологий 1. wet (мокрий); synonyms (adj) damp, humid, drenched, moist, soaked, sodden, dank, rainy, saturated, soggy, (v) moisten, water, dampen, wash, (n) moisture; antonyms (adj) dehydrated, parched, (v) dry, 2. damp; synonyms (adj) muggy, clammy, cool, dampish, (v) break, check, chill, deaden, benumb, cut, depress, discourage, (n) wet, dampness, clamminess; antonym (n) dryness, 3. moist; synonyms (adj) wettish, juicy, sticky, watery, dripping, marshy, succulent, sweaty.
- вологість 1. moisture; *synonyms* (*n*) humidity, damp, dampness, wet, moistness, vapor; *antonym* (*n*) dryness, 2. wet (мокрий); *synonyms* (*adj*) humid, drenched, moist, soaked, sodden, dank, rainy, saturated, soggy, watery, (*v*) moisten, water, dampen, wash, (*n*) moisture; *antonyms* (*adj*) dehydrated, parched, (*v*) dry, 3. damp; *synonyms* (*adj*) muggy, clammy, cool, dampish, (*v*) break, check, chill, deaden, benumb, cut, depress, discourage, dishearten, dull, (*n*) clamminess.

- **володарка** mistress; *synonyms* (*n*) dame, concubine, inamorata, madame, lady, lover, missis, master, owner, schoolmarm, schoolmistress, teacher, woman, impropriator.
- **володарювання** sovereignty; *synonyms* (*n*) kingdom, reign, empire, autonomy, dominion, independence, power, realm, rule, majesty, monarchy, control, supremacy, sceptre, ascendancy.
- BOJOGIHHH 1. domain; synonyms (n) country, department, realm, area, kingdom, arena, field, land, province, ambit, demesne, empire, region, sphere, compass; antonym (n) range, 2. tenure; synonyms (n) possession, tenancy, occupancy, occupation, incumbency, administration, copyhold, ownership, holding, reign, 3. possession; synonyms (n) keeping, goods, property, tenure, grasp, estate, asset, seizin, seizure, colony, custody, monomania, (v) acquisition, (adj) heritage, inheritance, 4. enjoyment; synonyms (n) delight, pleasure, appreciation, gratification, comfort, amusement, delectation, gusto, happiness, relish, satisfaction, diversion, bliss, estasy, entertainment; antonyms (n) boredom, dislike, 5. ownership; synonyms (n) control, proprietorship, title, hold, (adj) claim, right.
- володіти 1. possess; synonyms (v) have, hold, occupy, wield, bear, enjoy, keep, maintain, obsess, retain, consume, feature, (n) hazard, (adj) own, 2. hold; synonyms (v) detain, endure, adhere, comprise, contain, entertain, arrest, carry, confine, delay, (n) grasp, grip, clasp, clutch, handle; antonym (v) release, 3. own; synonyms (v) acknowledge, admit, concede, allow, grant, possess, confess, get, accept, avow, recognize, profess, (adj) individual, proper, private.
- **волокно** fibre; *synonyms* (n) fiber, character, case, eccentric, grapheme, lineament, part, persona, reference, role, shred, toughness, type.
- **волонтер** volunteer; *synonyms* (*n*) voluntary, (*v*) offer, proffer, tender, extend, propose, submit, (*adj*) unpaid.
- **волос** hair (волосся); *synonyms* (n) fuzz, coat, down, fleece, fur, hairbreadth, haircloth, locks, pile, coiffure, (adj) brush, clipping, driblet.
- **волосина** hair (волосся); *synonyms* (*n*) fuzz, coat, down, fleece, fur, hairbreadth, haircloth, locks, pile, coiffure, (*adj*) brush, clipping, driblet.
- **BOJOCCS** hair; *synonyms* (n) fuzz, coat, down, fleece, fur, hairbreadth, haircloth, locks, pile, coiffure, (*adj*) brush, clipping, driblet.
- **ВОЛЯ 1.** will; *synonyms* (*v*) bequeath, devise, wish, leave, (*n*) volition, command, desire, inclination, determination, pleasure, resolve, intent, mind, courage, liking, **2.** liberty; *synonyms* (*n*) freedom, immunity, license, independence, autonomy, emancipation, latitude, exemption, permission, privilege, release, scope, familiarity, ease, (*adj*) franchise, **3.** freedom; *synonyms* (*n*) deliverance, discharge, escape, liberty, relief, right, enfranchisement, sovereignty, leeway, liberation, riddance, (*adj*) frankness; *antonyms* (*n*) imprisonment, restriction, captivity, dependence, restraint, suppression.
- **Bopor** enemy; *synonyms* (n) adversary, antagonist, foe, opponent, opposition, competitor, assailant, foeman,

- hostile, challenger, contender, (adj) rival; antonyms (n) ally, friend, supporter.
- ворожий 1. adverse; synonyms (adj) contrary, unfavorable, harmful, hostile, untoward, adversary, averse, counter, inimical, negative, repugnant, antagonistic, bad, contradictory, (n) opposite; antonym (adj) favorable, 2. hostile; synonyms (adj) unfriendly, aggressive, adverse, belligerent, warlike, chilly, inhospitable, irreconcilable, opposed, unpropitious, discordant, cool, enemy, forbidding, (v) incompatible; antonyms (adj) friendly, soothing, warm.
- **BOPOЖICTЬ** hostility; *synonyms* (*n*) aggression, animosity, antagonism, enmity, feud, aversion, bitterness, conflict, hatred, rancor, war, belligerence, antipathy, disaffection, disagreement; *antonyms* (*n*) friendliness, closeness, goodwill.
- ворожка witch; *synonyms* (n) hag, pythoness, enchantress, sorceress, magician, lamia, wizard, augur, (v) enchant, bewitch, charm, glamour, hex, jinx, fascinate.
- ворота 1. gate; *synonyms* (*n*) entrance, door, entry, mouth, doorway, exit, port, approach, threshold, gateway, opening, porch, portal, way, turnout, 2. entry (вхід); *synonyms* (*n*) admission, article, accession, access, admittance, entree, hall, record, enrollment, entering, entranceway, entryway, incursion, note, register, 3. goal; *synonyms* (*n*) aim, butt, design, destination, end, purpose, basket, ambition, intent, intention, object, objective, target, aspiration, limit.
- **ворушити 1.** stir; *synonyms* (v) arouse, budge, move, rouse, affect, agitate, excite, inspire, go, (n) movement, commotion, disturbance, excitement, agitation, (adj) bustle, **2.** move; *synonyms* (v) act, carry, impel, instigate, maneuver, touch, travel, flow, bear, disturb, actuate, (n) motion, drive, transfer, advance; *antonym* (v) stay
- **BOPYMUTUCS** Stir; *synonyms* (*v*) arouse, budge, move, rouse, affect, agitate, excite, inspire, go, (*n*) movement, commotion, disturbance, excitement, agitation, (*adj*) bustle.
- **ворушіння** stir; *synonyms* (v) arouse, budge, move, rouse, affect, agitate, excite, inspire, go, (n) movement, commotion, disturbance, excitement, agitation, (adj) bustle.
- **BOCKPECATH** arise; *synonyms* (v) rise, appear, ascend, emerge, issue, mount, originate, proceed, result, awake, commence, develop, emanate, ensue, follow.
- **BOTYM** Vote; *synonyms* (n) ballot, election, poll, suffrage, franchise, voting, choice, balloting, (v) voice, elect.
- ВПЕВНЕНИЙ 1. assured; synonyms (adj) certain, confident, secure, sure, assertive, definite, guaranteed, positive, convinced, reliable, safe, surefire; antonyms (adj) insecure, uncertain, 2. certain; synonyms (adj) actual, absolute, assured, dependable, indisputable, categorical, decisive, fixed, inevitable, infallible, particular, perfect, special, specific, (v) bound; antonyms (adj) doubtful, unsure, questionable.
- вперед 1. ahead; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, beforehand, formerly, forward, onward, previously, beyond, fore, forth, forwards, on, onwards, winning, (*adj*) front, (*n*) lead; *antonyms* (*adv*) behind, late, 2. forward;

- synonyms (adv) ahead, along, (adj) bold, audacious, advanced, early, brazen, confident, (n) further, (v) advance, expedite, promote, cultivate, consign, (phr) dispatch; antonyms (adv) backward, (adj) shy, posterior.
- **впізнавати** recognize (визнавати); *synonyms* (*v*) acknowledge, know, discern, distinguish, identify, admit, discover, allow, appreciate, confess, realize, notice, descry, accredit, agnize.
- вплив 1. influence; synonyms (n) force, authority, control, domination, charm, command, hold, (v) affect, determine, dispose, effect, incline, bias, direct, govern, 2. authority (влада); synonyms (n) ascendancy, sanction, administration, authorization, dominance, judge, power, professional, rule, warrant, lordship, agency, approval, authorisation, bureau, 3. effect; synonyms (n) consequence, product, result, sequel, aftermath, conclusion, (v) accomplish, achieve, create, cause, complete, do, bring, carry, execute; antonym (n) reason, 4. action; synonyms (n) act, accomplishment, activity, battle, deed, engagement, fight, movement, performance, play, behavior, case, lawsuit, (v) achievement, combat; antonyms (n) inaction, inactivity, 5. dominance; synonyms (n) supremacy, advantage, ascendance, ascendency, dominion, superiority, preponderance, primacy, ascendence; antonym (n) inferiority, **6**. impact; *synonyms* (n) hit, shock, blow, clash, collision, crash, impingement, impression, influence, touch, bang, concussion, jolt, (v) contact, ram, 7. pressure; synonyms (n) compulsion, constraint, duress, exigency, insistence, load, pinch, urge, weight, emergency, hardship, jam, (v) drive, press, coerce; antonym (n) persuasion, 8. reaction; synonyms (n) answer, response, backlash, reply, reception, rejoinder, repercussion, retort, feeling.
- **ВПЛИВАТИ 1.** influence; *synonyms* (*n*) force, authority, control, domination, charm, command, hold, (*v*) affect, determine, dispose, effect, incline, bias, direct, govern, **2.** affect; *synonyms* (*v*) touch, move, act, fake, feign, impress, pretend, strike, concern, dissemble, hit, influence, involve, lead, pertain, **3.** react; *synonyms* (*v*) answer, respond, oppose, recoil, reply, behave, retort, return; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- впливовий 1. authoritative; synonyms (adj) official, absolute, authoritarian, authorized, commanding, imperious, influential, magistral, powerful, authorised, certain, definitive, dictatorial, (n) authentic, (v) departmental; antonym (adj) informal, 2. influential; synonyms (adj) dominant, potent, cogent, forcible, effective, impressive, predominant, prevailing, strong, considerable, efficacious, eminent, big, energetic, (v) important; antonyms (adj) insignificant, minor, unconvincing, 3. grave; synonyms (adj) austere, critical, serious, severe, solemn, earnest, bad, dangerous, deep, grand, sad, sedate, sober, (v) acute, engrave; antonyms (adj) mild, frivolous, funny.
- **вплинути** influence; *synonyms* (n) force, authority, control, domination, charm, command, hold, (v) affect, determine, dispose, effect, incline, bias, direct, govern.
- **ВПЛУТУВАТИ** involve; *synonyms* (*v*) imply, contain, affect, embrace, entail, implicate, comprise, complicate,

- demand, encompass, engage, envelop, include, tangle, (n) entangle; **antonym** (v) exclude.
- BIIPaBa 1. exercise; synonyms (n) practice, employment, application, discipline, play, movement, action, activity, (v) drill, apply, employ, use, exert, train, educate, 2. drill; synonyms (n) exercise, auger, borer, rehearsal, gimlet, preparation, (v) bore, coach, inculcate, instruct, perforate, pierce, tap, habituate, penetrate, 3. practice; synonyms (n) fashion, convention, experience, habit, form, observance, performance, process, rule, usage, work, behavior, (v) custom, act, rehearse.
- **вправляти** exercise; *synonyms* (*n*) practice, employment, application, discipline, play, movement, action, activity, (*v*) drill, apply, employ, use, exert, train, educate.
- вправний 1. able; synonyms (adj) capable, clever, competent, dexterous, accomplished, adroit, consummate, effective, expert, fit, gifted, ingenious, endowed, (n) efficient, talented; antonyms (adj) incapable, incompetent, inept, unable, untrained, weak, 2. handy; synonyms (adj) available, convenient, apt, deft, good, accessible, easy, commodious, functional, near, nearby, practical, skillful, useful, (n) ready; antonyms (adj) useless, clumsy, fixed, 3. good; synonyms (adj) able, benefit, delicious, right, excellent, fine, nice, superior, well, advantageous, agreeable, desirable, (n) benign, advantage, gain; antonyms (adj) disobedient, poor, wicked, unpleasant, (n) evil, bad, 4. clever; synonyms (adj) acute, intelligent, smart, astute, cunning, quick, sharp, artful, learned, adept, brainy, bright, cagey, (v) brilliant, brisk; antonyms (adj) stupid, unintelligent, dim, dull, 5. neat; synonyms (adj) elegant, clear, natty, tidy, graceful, dainty, clean, fresh, methodical, nifty, pretty, pure, straight, felicitous, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, disordered.
- **BITPABHICTL** craft; *synonyms* (n) boat, ability, art, cunning, trade, artfulness, guile, fraud, shift, artifice, business, deceit, job, occupation, profession.
- **впроваджувати** гоот; *synonyms* (*n*) base, foundation, origin, basis, radical, radix, cause, derivation, reason, beginning, bottom, core, essence, (*v*) establish, dig.
- **впускати** admit (допускати); *synonyms* (*v*) acknowledge, concede, accede, grant, affirm, confess, include, permit, take, appreciate, welcome, accommodate, adjudge, (*n*) allow, (*phr*) accept; *antonyms* (*v*) deny, exclude, reject.
- вражати 1. impress; synonyms (v) imprint, affect, mark, move, print, inscribe, instill, touch, emboss, dent, inculcate, strike, (n) stamp, impression, press, 2. shock; synonyms (n) blow, daze, impact, collision, outrage, surprise, concussion, (v) jar, offend, revolt, startle, appall, clash, disgust, dismay; antonym (v) comfort.
- **вражаючий** impressive; *synonyms* (*adj*) forcible, effective, commanding, imposing, powerful, striking, awesome, efficacious, exciting, formidable, influential, massive, memorable, (*n*) grand, noble; *antonyms* (*adj*) unimpressive. humble. ordinary. weak.
- враження 1. impression; *synonyms* (*n*) belief, conception, feeling, idea, imprint, depression, image, mark, notion, dent, appearance, effect, feel, impress,

- influence, **2**. impress; *synonyms* (*v*) affect, move, print, inscribe, instill, touch, emboss, inculcate, strike, amaze, dazzle, (*n*) stamp, impression, press, emblem, **3**. showing; *synonyms* (*n*) show, display, exhibit, screening, revelation, exposition, presentation, viewing.
- вразливий 1. susceptible; synonyms (adj) impressionable, receptive, responsive, sensitive, subject, liable, delicate, pliable, susceptive, vulnerable, irritable, open, amenable, exposed, impressible; antonyms (adj) resistant, unsusceptible, 2. intense; synonyms (adj) bright, acute, ardent, brilliant, deep, fervent, fierce, burning, energetic, extreme, fiery, furious, heated, rich, (v) vivid; antonyms (adj) mild, calm, dull, weak, imperceptible, slight.
- BPAXOBYBATU 1. consider; synonyms (v) believe, regard, think, cogitate, view, assume, calculate, conceive, contemplate, deliberate, reckon, reflect, analyze, consult, (n) study; antonym (v) ignore, 2. include; synonyms (v) hold, comprise, contain, embody, encompass, insert, comprehend, embrace, implicate, involve, number, add, admit, enclose, have; antonym (v) exclude, 3. allow; synonyms (v) acknowledge, accord, agree, give, grant, permit, accede, acquiesce, accept, afford, authorize, bear, consent, enable, endure; antonyms (v) forbid, prohibit, deny, reject.
- **врешті** finally; *synonyms* (*adv*) eventually, lastly, last, ultimately, definitely, completely, (*adj*) final, (*v*) definitively; *antonym* (*adv*) firstly.
- **BPEHITI-PEHIT** finally; *synonyms* (*adv*) eventually, lastly, last, ultimately, definitely, completely, (*adj*) final, (*v*) definitively; *antonym* (*adv*) firstly.
- врода beauty (краса); *synonyms* (n) splendor, attractiveness, beaut, charm, loveliness, pulchritude, dish, elegance, grace, grandeur, looker, magnificence, peach, stunner; *antonym* (n) ugliness.
- вродливий 1. beautiful (красивий); synonyms (adj) attractive, good-looking, bright, beauteous, fine, handsome, lovely, picturesque, pleasant, pretty, striking, sweet, adorned, ornate, dainty; antonyms (adj) ugly, unattractive, 2. handsome; synonyms (adj) elegant, beautiful, fair, charming, generous, bountiful, comely, bonny, big, bounteous, exquisite, gorgeous, graceful, liberal, prepossessing.
- врожай 1. harvest; *synonyms* (*n*) crop, fruit, ingathering, produce, profit, yield, (*v*) gain, gather, glean, amass, collect, garner, get, pick, reap, 2. crop; *synonyms* (*n*) harvest, craw, (*v*) browse, graze, top, cultivate, cut, lop, prune, shave, trim, reduce, (*adj*) clip, shear, dock.
- вручати 1. hand (рука); *synonyms* (n) deal, aid, applause, employee, paw, worker, (v) deliver, give, pass, commit, bestow, afford, communicate, reach, grant, 2. deliver; *synonyms* (v) consign, bear, carry, rescue, save, abandon, bring, liberate, pronounce, render, return, send, utter, drop, acquit.
- BPY4EHH 1. delivery; synonyms (n) childbirth, birth, consignment, discharge, rescue, communication, confinement, deliverance, distribution, elocution, issue, surrender, articulation, (v) address, parturition; antonyms (n) death, dispatch, 2. commitment; synonyms (n) dedication, charge, allegiance, appointment, committal,

- devotion, loyalty, promise, tie, commission, contract, debt, duty, engagement, faithfulness.
- **вряди-годи** occasionally; *synonyms* (*adv*) sometimes, irregularly, periodically, seldom, infrequently, uncommonly; *antonyms* (*adv*) frequently, regularly.
- **врятування** redemption; *synonyms* (*n*) ransom, atonement, salvation, discharge, expiation, buyback, performance, repurchase, fulfillment, acquittal, observance, recompense, release, reparation, rescue.
- Bce all; synonyms (adv) whole, purely, altogether, entirely, totally, wholly, apiece, (adj) universal, each, every, gross, complete, alone, (n) aggregate, (det) any; antonyms (pron) none, (det) some.
- **всебічний** comprehensive; *synonyms* (*adj*) capacious, broad, extensive, inclusive, complete, detailed, exhaustive, full, large, overall, sweeping, thorough, total, universal, wide; *antonyms* (*adj*) narrow, partial, noncomprehensive, restricted.
- **BCEJITU** strike; *synonyms* (*n*) knock, assault, clap, (*v*) bang, beat, hit, impress, slap, move, affect, box, buffet, bump, clout, coin.
- Всеосяжний 1. comprehensive; synonyms (adj) capacious, broad, extensive, inclusive, complete, detailed, exhaustive, full, large, overall, sweeping, thorough, total, universal, wide; antonyms (adj) narrow, partial, noncomprehensive, restricted, 2. overall; synonyms (adj) entire, whole, comprehensive, general, aggregate, global, widespread, (adv) generally, everywhere, (n) smock, boilersuit, 3. spacious (просторий); synonyms (adj) roomy, ample, commodious, vast, big, expansive, extended, liberal, open, airy, comfortable, sizable, voluminous, convenient; antonym (adj) cramped.
- всередині 1. within; synonyms (prep) into, (adv) inside, in, indoors, internally, inwardly, inly, (n) interior, (adj) inwards; antonyms (prep) outside, beyond, 2. inside; synonyms (adv) within, (n) middle, center, stomach, bosom, contents, (adj) inner, internal, indoor, inland, inward, private, privileged; antonyms (n) exterior, (adj) free, 3. in (y); synonyms (prep) during, between, by, through, at, (v) press, (n) inch, (adj) stylish, fashionable, trendy, modish, popular; antonym (prep) out.
- BCCCBIT 1. universe; synonyms (n) nature, creation, world, cosmos, population, macrocosm, space, globe, existence,
  2. world; synonyms (n) universe, public, sphere, society, realm, humanity, life, mankind, people, orb, folk, ball, (adj) global, power, volume.
- всесвітній 1. worldwide; synonyms (adj) global, ecumenical, general, cosmopolitan, common, universal, international, world, comprehensive, intercontinental, oecumenical, planetary; antonym (adj) local, 2. global; synonyms (adj) overall, worldwide, earthly, total, globose, globular, inclusive, orbicular, spheric, spherical, terrestrial, sweeping; antonym (adj) national, 3. universal; synonyms (adj) public, ubiquitous, widespread, generic, ordinary, pervasive, popular, prevalent, omnipresent, extensive, customary, frequent; antonym (adj) specific.
- **BCC-TAKU 1.** Still; synonyms (adv) however, but, nevertheless, (adj) calm, pacify, peaceful, silence, quiescent, serene, silent, (n) hush, (v) quiet, assuage,

- compose, lull; *antonyms* (*adj*) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, (*n*) noisy, **2**. nevertheless; *synonyms* (*adv*) still, though, anyway, anyhow, even, nonetheless, notwithstanding, regardless, withal, eventually, (*conj*) yet, although, howbeit, nathless, **3**. though; *synonyms* (*conj*) whereas, while, (*adv*) tho'.
- Bci all; synonyms (adv) whole, purely, altogether, entirely, totally, wholly, apiece, (adj) universal, each, every, gross, complete, alone, (n) aggregate, (det) any; antonyms (pron) none, (det) some.
- **BCTABAHHЯ** rising; *synonyms* (*adj*) climbing, uphill, emergent, (*n*) ascending, mutiny, rebellion, revolt, ascension, ascent, climb, insurrection, outbreak, rise, advance, (*adv*) increasing; *antonyms* (*adj*) plummeting, decreasing, plunging.
- BCTABATH 1. rise; synonyms (n) elevation, lift, ascent, progress, raise, swell, raising, advancement, (v) climb, mount, ascend, increase, heave, arise, jump; antonyms (n) reduction, (v) fall, decrease, drop, sink, descend, plummet, retire, 2. arise; synonyms (v) rise, appear, emerge, issue, originate, proceed, result, awake, commence, develop, emanate, ensue, follow, grow, happen.
- встановити 1. install; synonyms (v) establish, fix, inaugurate, appoint, erect, crown, induct, instal, invest, lodge, place, plant, post, put, quarter; antonym (v) overthrow, 2. establish; synonyms (v) confirm, prove, base, build, constitute, demonstrate, settle, arrange, ascertain, create, determine, found, institute, begin, certify; antonyms (v) disprove, abolish, terminate, 3. place; synonyms (n) position, domicile, office, order, spot, attitude, job, location, (v) lay, locate, rank, station, deposit, install, pitch; antonym (v) remove.
- **встановлення 1**. installation; *synonyms* (*n*) establishment, induction, facility, inauguration, initiation, installment, investiture, plant, appointment, installing, introduction, settlement, **2**. institution; *synonyms* (*n*) creation, institute, formation, asylum, founding, academy, custom, foundation, organization, tradition, practice, college, organisation, constitution, convention.
- **встановлювати 1.** install; *synonyms* (*v*) establish, fix, inaugurate, appoint, erect, crown, induct, instal, invest, lodge, place, plant, post, put, quarter; *antonym* (*v*) overthrow, **2.** define; *synonyms* (*v*) specify, characterize, clarify, explain, bound, construe, interpret, limit, name, restrict, circumscribe, outline, delimit, delimitate, delimeate, **3.** establish; *synonyms* (*v*) confirm, prove, base, build, constitute, demonstrate, settle, arrange, ascertain, create, determine, found, institute, begin, certify; *antonyms* (*v*) disprove, abolish, terminate, **4.** rate; *synonyms* (*n*) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (*v*) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, rank.
- **ВСТУП** 1. introduction; *synonyms* (*n*) induction, beginning, foreword, insertion, preface, presentation, entrance, initiation, preamble, preliminary, prelude, admission, entry, intro, opening; *antonyms* (*n*) finale, export, postscript, **2**. admission; *synonyms* (*n*) acceptance, access, acknowledgment, confession,

- admittance, declaration, reception, recognition, confirmation, acquiescence, affirmation, allowance, concession, entree, inclusion; *antonym* (*n*) denial, **3**. entry (BXiA); *synonyms* (*n*) article, door, accession, doorway, hall, record, enrollment, entering, entranceway, entryway, gateway, incursion, note, register, arrival; *antonym* (*n*) exit, **4**. induction; *synonyms* (*n*) inauguration, deduction, elicitation, inductance, installation, introduction, analysis, calculation, consecration, dialectics, dissection, evocation, generalization, investiture.
- **ВСТУПАТИ** enter; *synonyms* (v) enlist, embark, enroll, book, chronicle, record, input, arrive, come, accede, attack, begin, board, enrol, insert; *antonyms* (v) leave, depart, delete, exit.
- **ВСТУПИТИ** enter; *synonyms* (v) enlist, embark, enroll, book, chronicle, record, input, arrive, come, accede, attack, begin, board, enrol, insert; *antonyms* (v) leave, depart, delete, exit.
- **ВСТУПНИЙ 1**. initiative; *synonyms* (*n*) enterprise, gumption, opening, ambition, energy, drive, inventiveness, creativity, originality, enterprisingness, (*adj*) initial, inaugural, initiatory, incipient, first, **2**. introductory; *synonyms* (*adj*) elementary, inceptive, basic, prefatory, preliminary, prefatorial, prelusive, preparatory, preceding, proemial; *antonym* (*adj*) final.
- **всюди 1.** everywhere; *synonyms* (*adv*) everyplace, overall, somewhere, where, (*pron*) anywhere, (*n*) anyplace, **2**. anywhere, **3**. throughout; *synonyms* (*prep*) during, (*adv*) around, about, bodily, passim.
- BCS 1. all; synonyms (adv) whole, purely, altogether, entirely, totally, wholly, apiece, (adj) universal, each, every, gross, complete, alone, (n) aggregate, (det) any; antonyms (pron) none, (det) some, 2. Whole; synonyms (adj) entire, total, all, integral, full, healthy, intact, well, unbroken, undivided, unabridged, (n) sum, sound, hale, unit; antonyms (adj) incomplete, broken, imperfect, partial, (n) part.
- **ВСЯКИЙ 1.** any; *synonyms* (*adj*) all, either, whichever, every, several, some, alone, few, ony, quantitative, only, (*n*) aught, part, (*pron*) who, **2.** all; *synonyms* (*adv*) whole, purely, altogether, entirely, totally, wholly, apiece, completely, (*adj*) universal, each, gross, complete, entire, (*n*) aggregate, (*det*) any; *antonym* (*pron*) none.
- BTE4A 1. bolt; synonyms (n) arrow, dash, pin, catch, (v) bar, abscond, gobble, latch, lock, escape, decamp, devour, fasten, gulp, (adv) bang; antonyms (v) nibble, unbolt, unlock, 2. escape; synonyms (v) elude, break, dodge, avoid, evade, run, bolt, circumvent, leave, duck, bilk, (n) leak, avoidance, evasion, outlet; antonyms (v) capture, return.
- BTIJEHHЯ creation; synonyms (n) cosmos, production, world, composition, invention, conception, construction, creature, fabrication, formation, foundation, founding, piece, product, universe; antonyms (n) destruction, end.
- **BTIXA** consolation; *synonyms* (*n*) comfort, solace, relief, balm, ease, succor, encouragement, solacement, alleviation, sympathy.
- **втішний** enjoyable; *synonyms* (*adj*) delectable, agreeable, amusing, delicious, delightful, pleasant, gratifying, lovely, pleasing, pleasurable, joyful,

- heavenly, acceptable, charming, comfortable; *antonym* (*adj*) unpleasant.
- BTOMA fatigue; synonyms (n) exhaustion, tiredness, weariness, lethargy, (v) exhaust, tire, weary, bore, enervate, fag, harass, jade, wear, drain, (adj) flag; antonyms (n) energy, (v) refresh.
- **втомлений** tired; *synonyms* (*adj*) exhausted, fatigued, hackneyed, weary, banal, commonplace, stale, threadbare, trite, beat, haggard, jaded, stock, worn, drowsy; *antonyms* (*adj*) fresh, invigorated, alert, refreshed, energetic, original, strong.
- BTOPIHEHHS 1. invasion; synonyms (n) attack, assault, aggression, incursion, inroad, descent, foray, influx, intrusion, encroachment, infringement, occupation, raid, breach, charge; antonyms (n) retreat, surrender, 2. penetration; synonyms (n) insight, acuteness, discrimination, entrance, profundity, perception, sagacity, coition, coitus, (v) intelligence, discernment, judgment, acupuncture, (adj) acumen, subtlety.
- BTPATA 1. loss; synonyms (n) hurt, damage, defeat, detriment, injury, deficit, deprivation, destruction, forfeit, forfeiture, bereavement, decrease, cost, fall, (adj) harm; antonyms (n) appearance, retrieval, victory, gaining, income, recovery, 2. Waste; synonyms (n) desert, refuse, trash, dissipation, garbage, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, devastate, dissipate; antonyms (v) conserve, save, 3. deprivation; synonyms (n) privation, loss, need, want, deficiency, absence, dearth, scarcity, destitution, disadvantage, distress, hardship, lack, neediness, penury, 4. miss; synonyms (v) lose, fail, jump, omit, overlook, long, drop, escape, neglect, (n) maid, girl, fille, missy, (adj) fault, pretermit; antonym (v) perceive.
- BTPATUTU lose; synonyms (v) drop, forfeit, mislay, sacrifice, fail, clear, hurt, regress, retrogress, destroy, misplace, recede, suffer, waste, escape; antonyms (v) gain, find, acquire, earn, get, obtain, recover, secure, win, beat, defeat, keep, succeed.
- BTPA4ATU 1. lose; synonyms (v) drop, forfeit, mislay, sacrifice, fail, clear, hurt, regress, retrogress, destroy, misplace, recede, suffer, waste, escape; antonyms (v) gain, find, acquire, earn, get, obtain, recover, secure, win, beat, defeat, keep, succeed, 2. cast; synonyms (v) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (n) appearance, casting, mold.
- **втрачений** lost; *synonyms* (v) gone, missing, abandoned, (adj) doomed, forlorn, extinct, hopeless, bewildered, disoriented, forgotten, helpless, broken, confused, irrecoverable, absent; antonyms (adj) present, found, existing.
- **втручання 1**. intervention; *synonyms* (*n*) intercession, interference, intermediation, intervene, arbitration, hindrance, intermission, (*adj*) mediation, interposition, **2**. interference; *synonyms* (*n*) disturbance, handicap, block, blocking, encumbrance, hitch, inhibition, intervention, obstruction, antagonism, intermeddling, disruption, distraction, check, (*v*) collision.
- **втручатися 1**. intervene; *synonyms* (*v*) interfere, intercede, interpose, mediate, arbitrate, meddle, interject,

- intermediate, **2**. interfere; *synonyms* (*v*) obstruct, disturb, conflict, clash, hinder, impede, intervene, tamper, interrupt, contravene, encroach, jar, intrude, make, (*adj*) intermeddle.
- **ВТЯГУВАННЯ** involvement; *synonyms* (*n*) entanglement, concern, interest, implication, inclusion, connection, engagement, complicity, part, participation, affair, affaire, amour, intimacy; *antonym* (*n*) disconnection.
- **ВУГІЛЛЯ** coal; *synonyms* (*n*) ember, culm, firewood, oil, petroleum, energy, gas, (*v*) char, blacken, scorch, (*adj*) black.
- **ВУГІЛЬНИЙ** coal; *synonyms* (*n*) ember, culm, firewood, oil, petroleum, energy, gas, (*v*) char, blacken, scorch, (*adi*) black.
- **ВУГЛЕЦЬ** carbon; *synonyms* (*n*) coke, coal, anthracite, carbonado, duplicate, facsimile, replica, reproduction, culm, forgery, image, (*v*) copy, counterfeit, imitate, (*adj*) equivalent.
- **Вудити** bob; *synonyms* (*n*) shilling, jump, (*v*) curtsy, dock, bow, toss, dip, bend, bounce, cut, jiggle, reel, tail, tap, trim
- **By30.1** 1. knot; *synonyms* (*n*) bow, cluster, tie, loop, bunch, gang, joint, lump, tangle, band, burl, (*v*) entangle, knit, bind, fasten, **2**. node; *synonyms* (*n*) knob, connection, knot, nodosity, nub, swelling, client, guest.
- вузький 1. narrow; synonyms (adj) close, limited, insular, little, cramped, illiberal, mean, (v) confined, contract, limit, lessen, constrict, shrink, abridge, dwindle; antonyms (adj) wide, broad, comprehensive, extensive, (v) widen, extend, 2. confined; synonyms (v) accurate, (adj) captive, imprisoned, bounded, invalided, constrained, narrow, poky, qualified, restricted, strict, jailed; antonym (adj) free, 3. petty; synonyms (adj) insignificant, frivolous, paltry, trivial, light, negligible, puny, minute, exiguous, measly, fiddling, fine, footling, inconsiderable, inferior; antonyms (adj) major, important.
- **By3bKo** narrowly; *synonyms* (*adv*) barely, hardly, just, closely, straitly, strictly, exactly, carefully, accurately, precisely, intimately, personally, scantly, streite, almost; *antonym* (*adv*) generally.
- **ВУЛИЦЯ 1.** street; *synonyms* (*n*) road, avenue, highway, way, route, lane, neighborhood, path, track, thoroughfare, walk, (*v*) roadway, **2.** road; *synonyms* (*n*) course, passage, line, approach, direction, street, access, artery, itinerary, means, method, pathway, trail, (*adj*) traveling, itinerant.
- **Вуличний** street (вулиця); *synonyms* (n) road, avenue, highway, way, route, lane, neighborhood, path, track, thoroughfare, walk, (v) roadway.
- **ВУЛКАНІЧНИЙ** volcanic; *synonyms* (*adj*) eruptive, plutonic, excitable, irruptive, volcanian, (*v*) burning, inextinguishable, irrepressible, simmering, stanchless, ungovernable, volatile.
- **ВУЛЬГАРНИЙ 1**. coarse; *synonyms* (*adj*) barbarous, boorish, brutal, crude, gross, rough, vulgar, bawdy, blunt, broad, common, earthy, harsh, rude, uncivilized; *antonyms* (*adj*) refined, smooth, sophisticated, **2**. low (НИЗЬКИЙ); *synonyms* (*adj*) contemptible, abject, humble, ignoble, base, blue, deep, dejected, depressed, down, downcast, downhearted, feeble, (*adv*) gentle, (*n*)

- depression; *antonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, happy, highpitched, loud, important, piercing, (*n*) high.
- **Byc** moustache (Byca); *synonyms* (*n*) hair, mustache, (*adj*) beard, whisker, brush, mane, ringlet, tress, shag.
- **Byca** moustache; *synonyms* (*n*) hair, mustache, (*adj*) beard, whisker, brush, mane, ringlet, tress, shag.
- Byxo 1. ear; synonyms (n) auricle, handle, hearing, lug, spike, capitulum, heed, earing, notice, crown, pinna, appreciation, discrimination, favor, (v) cultivate, 2. canon; synonyms (n) rule, doctrine, law, principle, regulation, code, criterion, formula, statute, creed, prebendary.
- **BYHIKO** ear (Byxo); *synonyms* (n) auricle, handle, hearing, lug, spike, capitulum, heed, earing, notice, crown, pinna, appreciation, discrimination, favor, (v) cultivate.
- **вхід 1**. entry; synonyms (n) entrance, admission, article, door, accession, access, admittance, doorway, entree, hall, record, enrollment, entering, entranceway, entryway; antonym (n) exit, 2. entrance; synonyms (n) entry, arrival, threshold, induction, advent, appearance, approach, (v) enchant, captivate, charm, bewitch, enrapture, fascinate, enthrall, delight; antonyms (n) departure, (v) bore, 3. admission; synonyms (n) acceptance, acknowledgment, confession, declaration, reception, recognition, confirmation, acquiescence, affirmation, allowance, concession, inclusion, introduction, pass, permission; antonym (n) denial, 4. input; synonyms (n) contribution, incoming, data, advice, feed, arousal, comment, expression, foreplay, influence, stimulant, stimulation, stimulus, voice, (v) accredit, 5. mouth (pot); synonyms (n) jaw, lip, aperture, lips, edge, brim, bill, (v) grimace, articulate, pronounce, speak, utter, vocalize, blab, deliver.
- **BXOQUITU** enter; *synonyms* (v) enlist, embark, enroll, book, chronicle, record, input, arrive, come, accede, attack, begin, board, enrol, insert; *antonyms* (v) leave, depart, delete, exit.
- **вчений 1**. scientist; *synonyms* (*n*) scholar, master, archaeologist, doctor, engineer, **2**. learned; *synonyms* (*v*) knowing, (*adj*) erudite, educated, enlightened, knowledgeable, wise, academic, scholarly, bookish, cultured, intellectual, lettered, literary, studious, informed; *antonyms* (*adj*) ignorant, innate, **3**. scholar; *synonyms* (*n*) learner, pupil, student, pundit, apprentice, brain, disciple, adherent, follower; *antonym* (*n*) dilettante.
- **BYEHICT5** scholarship; *synonyms* (*n*) erudition, learning, lore, education, award, learnedness, letters, reading, edification, allowance, science, eruditeness, literacy, prize, (*v*) knowledge.
- **ВЧИНЕННЯ** commitment; *synonyms* (*n*) dedication, charge, allegiance, appointment, committal, devotion, loyalty, promise, tie, commission, confinement, consignment, contract, debt, duty.
- **ВЧИНОК 1.** action; *synonyms* (*n*) act, accomplishment, activity, agency, battle, deed, effect, engagement, fight, movement, performance, play, behavior, case, (*v*) achievement; *antonyms* (*n*) inaction, inactivity, **2**. act; *synonyms* (*n*) action, move, statute, decree, do, feat, law, (*v*) behave, go, perform, acquit, enact, feign, operate, pretend; *antonym* (*v*) refrain, **3**. deed; *synonyms* (*n*)

- exploit, covenant, document, doing, effort, fact, title, certificate, job, measure, paper, proceeding, reality, thing, ownership.
- **ВЧИНЯТИ** commit; *synonyms* (*v*) commend, assign, charge, consign, apply, confide, dedicate, entrust, submit, deliver, devote, give, intrust, leave, send.
- **ВЧИТЕ**ЛЬ teacher; *synonyms* (*n*) instructor, master, coach, preceptor, educator, mentor, tutor, guide, missionary, trainer, adviser, counselor, guru; *antonym* (*n*) student.
- **вчити** teach (навчати); *synonyms* (v) inform, enlighten, coach, educate, instruct, indoctrinate, drill, learn, lecture, school, direct, discipline, form, (adi) guide, show.
- **Buopa** yesterday; *synonyms* (n) past, history, bygone, foretime, (adi) passé, stale; *antonym* (n) tomorrow.
- в'язання knitting; synonyms (n) knit, knitwork, plain.
- **в'язень** prisoner; *synonyms* (n) convict, captive, hostage, accused, criminal, defendant.
- B'R3Ka 1. bunch; synonyms (n) cluster, clump, crowd, batch, band, gang, group, lot, troop, horde, bulge, herd, (v) bundle, huddle, pack; antonym (v) disperse, 2. bundle; synonyms (n) pile, sheaf, heap, load, package, packet, parcel, stack, wad, set, collection, mass, mint, mound, (v) bunch, 3. rope; synonyms (n) cable, lasso, lariat, noose, cord, hawser, leash, line, string, tape, lace, tether, thread, (v) tie, bind.
- **в'язниця 1**. prison (тюрма); *synonyms* (*n*) jail, calaboose, confinement, lockup, penitentiary, jug, confine, custody, **2**. jail; *synonyms* (*n*) cage, prison, cell, clink, jailhouse, slammer, (*v*) gaol, imprison, incarcerate, detain, immure, arrest, lag.

## Г

- **Гавань 1**. harbour; *synonyms* (*n*) haven, seaport, (*v*) harbor, entertain, contain, bear, hold, nurse, shield, **2**. port; *synonyms* (*n*) asylum, carriage, demeanor, pier, mien, bearing, deportment, dock, embrasure, gate, harbour, interface, refuge, (*adj*) larboard, left; *antonym* (*n*) starboard.
- **Гавкати** bay; *synonyms* (*n*) alcove, bark, recess, cry, harbor, fiord, sound, cove, embayment, gulf, (*adj*) brown, (*v*) yap, roar, bellow, howl.
- **ΓαДαΤu** 1. believe; *synonyms* (*v*) think, accredit, assume, conceive, consider, guess, reckon, understand, accept, expect, hope, imagine, suppose, (*n*) belief, trust; *antonyms* (*v*) disbelieve, distrust, **2**. think; *synonyms* (*v*) believe, estimate, hold, muse, ponder, reflect, regard, cogitate, conjecture, contemplate, deliberate, meditate, reason, study, suspect; *antonym* (*v*) forget, **3**. suppose; *synonyms* (*v*) infer, divine, presume, speculate, calculate, judge, fancy, count, figure, anticipate, deem, feel, gather, hypothesize, opine.
- гадка thought; *synonyms* (v) observation, (n) notion, idea, opinion, conception, consideration, impression, belief, feeling, reflection, sentiment, concept, judgment, apprehension, attention; *antonym* (n) fact.

- **гадюка** snake; *synonyms* (*n*) ophidian, serpent, hydra, (*v*) meander, wind, twist, coil, creep, curl, sneak, weave.
- Γα3 gas; synonyms (n) gasoline, petrol, air, fumes, accelerator, flatulence, petroleum, oil, gasolene, vapor, (ν) fuel, brag, vaunt, blague, blow.
- **FA3ETA** 1. newspaper; *synonyms* (n) journal, gazette, magazine, paper, news, periodical, print, publisher, newsprint, press, publication, 2. journal; *synonyms* (n) diary, book, newspaper, ephemeris, chronicle, log, record, annals, calendar, organ, review, annual, (adj) daybook, daily, diurnal, 3. organ; *synonyms* (n) instrument, member, limb, agency, harmonium, medium, part, means, channel.
- **Газовий** gas; *synonyms* (n) gasoline, petrol, air, fumes, accelerator, flatulence, petroleum, oil, gasolene, vapor, (v) fuel, brag, vaunt, blague, blow.
- **Fa30H** lawn; *synonyms* (n) grass, grassplot, field, green, park, meadow, grassplat, plot, backyard, esplanade, mead, pasturage, heather, neighborhood, plat.
- **гай** wood; *synonyms* (*n*) forest, timber, woods, tree, lumber, coppice, jungle.
- **Гайка** nut; *synonyms* (*n*) lunatic, crackpot, crank, eccentric, egg, freak, fruitcake, kernel, head, fruit, kook, maniac, nutcase, screwball, seed.
- Γακ hook; synonyms (n) clasp, crook, claw, crotchet, draw, lure, trap, anchor, (v) catch, bend, fasten, hitch, button, ensnare, attach.
- **Галактика** galaxy; *synonyms* (*n*) constellation, beetleweed, bevy, cosmos, galax, bunch, coltsfoot, speckling, wandflower, (*adj*) array, army, sea, sight, star, sun.
- **ΓαπαΗΤΕΡΕЯ** notion; *synonyms* (n) feeling, belief, idea, impression, caprice, concept, conception, fancy, image, imagination, opinion, guess, hunch, conjecture, (ν) judgment.
- **Γαπαc 1.** noise (IIIyM); synonyms (n) clatter, clamor, hubbub, racket, sound, din, disturbance, echo, uproar, buzz, clang, commotion, crack, crash, (v) fame; antonyms (n) silence, quiet, 2. boom; synonyms (n) bang, roar, noise, bar, peal, beam, gain, (v) blast, blare, flourish, thrive, thunder, bellow, prosper, roll; antonyms (n) depression, (v) collapse, decline.
- **Галасливий** noisy; *synonyms* (*adj*) disorderly, boisterous, clamorous, loud, vociferous, blatant, rowdy, shrill, strident, tumultuous, turbulent, vocal, bustling, confused, harsh; *antonyms* (*adj*) quiet, peaceful, silent, calm, tranquil.
- галерея gallery; synonyms (n) balcony, audience, drift, veranda, circle, porch, terrace, verandah, auditorium, auditory, boxes.
- **Γαλιτγκ** tie; synonyms (n) band, connection, draw, lace, association, relationship, sleeper, (v) link, bond, attach, bind, join, knot, connect, fasten; antonyms (v) disconnect, untie, undo.
- **галузь 1**. branch; *synonyms* (*n*) arm, jump, wing, affiliate, ramus, member, division, limb, offshoot, outgrowth, section, shoot, (*v*) fork, diverge, divide, **2**. area (площа); *synonyms* (*n*) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood, sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land, range, **3**. realm;

- synonyms (n) kingdom, area, country, nation, arena, department, empire, ground, commonwealth, province, demesne, monarchy, orbit, state, territory, 4. circle (KOJO); synonyms (n) round, association, band, ring, beat, circuit, company, gang, scope, set, league, (v) turn, whirl, encircle, circulate, 5. domain; synonyms (n) realm, ambit, county, discipline, space, class, dominion, estate, line, manor, subject, 6. direction; synonyms (n) administration, conduct, bearing, command, course, guidance, address, charge, control, instruction, rule, aspect, aim, counsel, (v) management, 7. province; synonyms (n) colony, duty, function, jurisdiction, office, quarter, responsibility, terrain, possession, 8. territory (територія); synonyms (n) environment, habitat, community, home, sovereignty.
- **Гальмо** drag; *synonyms* (*v*) attract, haul, draw, puff, trail, cart, hale, heave, lug, tow, delay, (*n*) pull, bother, bore, hindrance; *antonym* (*v*) push.
- **Гальмувати 1**. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow, 2. lock; synonyms (n) curl, hook, padlock, strand, (v) bar, close, latch, engage, fasten, hug, hold, interlock, secure, shut, (adj) hair; antonyms (v) unlock, open.
- **гаманець 1.** purse; *synonyms* (*n*) pocket, bag, pouch, handbag, pocketbook, prize, container, pod, (*v*) pucker, wrinkle, crease, contract, **2**. wallet; *synonyms* (*n*) purse, billfold, notecase, case, satchel.
- **Famip** noise (<u>Hiym</u>); *synonyms* (*n*) clatter, clamor, hubbub, racket, sound, din, disturbance, echo, uproar, buzz, clang, commotion, crack, crash, (*v*) fame; *antonyms* (*n*) silence, quiet.
- **Гандикап 1**. handicap; *synonyms* (*n*) drawback, balk, hurdle, barrier, deterrent, disability, disablement, disadvantage, hindrance, impediment, (*v*) block, hamper, embarrass, encumber, hinder; *antonyms* (*v*) advantage, benefit, **2**. odds; *synonyms* (*n*) chance, likelihood, possibility, probability, likeliness, chances, prospect, handicap, superiority, edge, (*v*) difference, dissension, misunderstanding, variance.
- **ганити** blame; *synonyms* (*v*) accuse, arraign, censure, reprimand, charge, reproach, chide, fault, rebuke, attribute, (*n*) attack, rap, onus, accusation, allegation; *antonyms* (*v*) pardon, absolve, praise.
- **Ганок** porch; *synonyms* (*n*) lobby, hall, veranda, vestibule, balcony, door, entrance, portico, inlet, doorway, patio, portal, chops, conservatory, lips.
- **ганьба 1**. shame; *synonyms* (*n*) reproach, disgrace, discredit, humiliation, chagrin, insult, modesty, pity, scandal, contempt, (*v*) dishonor, degrade, humiliate, abash, debase; *antonym* (*v*) honor, **2**. spot; *synonyms* (*n*) blot, place, speck, stain, dot, dapple, dirty, location, mark, (*v*) blemish, soil, fleck, speckle, daub, flaw.
- **Ганьбити** soil; *synonyms* (*n*) ground, dirt, grime, land, dust, (*v*) smudge, blot, contaminate, dirty, pollute, mire, blemish, defile, foul, mould; *antonym* (*v*) clean.
- **Γαραж 1**. garage, **2**. barn; *synonyms* (n) shed, store, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (adj) foul, unclean, **3**. shed; *synonyms* (v) cast, discard, drop, moult, scatter, exuviate, molt,

- dismiss, disgorge, emit, fling, (n) hut, shack, cabin, booth
- **гаразд** okay; *synonyms* (*adv*) fine, (*adj*) good, alright, well, fair, (*int*) yes, (*n*) approval, authorization, agreement, (*v*) approve, sanction, consent, endorse, authorize, countenance; *antonyms* (*adj*) unsatisfactory, (*v*) forbid.
- **Fapahtis 1**. assurance; *synonyms* (*n*) confidence, belief, guarantee, pledge, affiance, certitude, conviction, faith, nerve, poise, promise, reliance, security, sureness, trust; *antonym* (*n*) insecurity, **2**. guarantee; *synonyms* (*n*) bail, assure, guaranty, warranty, assurance, warrant, bond, collateral, deposit, (*ν*) certify, engage, endorse, ensure, secure, sponsor, **3**. security; *synonyms* (*n*) protection, safety, hostage, insurance, guard, secureness, strength, peace, cover, defense, ease, gage, safeguard, shelter, (*ad̄*) firmness; *antonym* (*n*) danger.
- **ΓαραΗΤУΒΑΤΗ 1.** Warrant; *synonyms* (*n*) guarantee, authority, vouch, authorization, security, certificate, commission, (*ν*) permit, license, assure, justify, sanction, ensure, authorize, empower, **2**. assure; *synonyms* (*ν*) certify, secure, affirm, ascertain, persuade, promise, reassure, satisfy, confirm, convince, cover, insure, assert, check, (*n*) warrant, **3**. guarantee; *synonyms* (*n*) bail, guaranty, warranty, assurance, pledge, bond, collateral, deposit, undertaking, (*ν*) engage, endorse, sponsor, undertake, contract, stipulate, **4**. ensure; *synonyms* (*ν*) control, determine, safeguard, see.
- **гардероб** wardrobe; *synonyms* (*n*) closet, clothing, costume, cupboard, garb, clothes, apparel, dress, wear, garment, outfit, palliament, press.
- **гардеробна** wardrobe; *synonyms* (*n*) closet, clothing, costume, cupboard, garb, clothes, apparel, dress, wear, garment, outfit, palliament, press.
- **Fapmata** gun; *synonyms* (n) artillery, gunman, handgun, ordnance, pistol, revolver, shooter, torpedo, accelerator, arrow, gas, (v) shoot, cracker.
- rapmonis 1. harmony; synonyms (n) accord, conformity, consonance, agreement, concord, correspondence, accordance, congruity, consistency, amity, concordance, tune, understanding, (ν) concert, peace; antonyms (n) dissonance, discord, argument, conflict, disagreement,
   2. accord; synonyms (n) assent, consensus, harmony, concurrence, (ν) agree, consent, give, bestow, grant, harmonize, suit, adjust, comply, compromise, confer; antonym (n) strife,
   3. rhythm (ритм); synonyms (n) measure, cadence, meter, beat, pulse, cycle, tempo, rhyme, metre, melody, strain, swing, accent, assonance, crambo.
- **гарненький** pretty; *synonyms* (*adv*) very, fairly, (*adj*) beautiful, fair, graceful, lovely, attractive, charming, handsome, good-looking, picturesque, dainty, cute, elegant, (*n*) nice; *antonym* (*adj*) ugly.
- гарненько 1. well (добре); synonyms (adv) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, good, (adj) healthy, fit, shaft, sound, robust, (n) fountain, spring, pit, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous, 2. properly; synonyms (adv) duly, correctly, exactly, neatly, appropriately, decently, aright, decent, fitly, fittingly, precisely, well, aptly, fairly, justly.

- гарний 1. beautiful (красивий); synonyms (adj) attractive, good-looking, bright, beauteous, fine, handsome, lovely, picturesque, pleasant, pretty, striking, sweet, adorned, ornate, dainty; antonyms (adj) ugly, unattractive, 2. good; synonyms (adj) able, benefit, delicious, right, efficient, capable, excellent, nice, superior, well, advantageous, agreeable, (n) benign, advantage, gain; antonyms (adj) disobedient, poor, wicked, unpleasant, (n) evil, bad, 3. fine; synonyms (adj) delicate, brave, capital, elegant, thin, delightful, acute, admirable, alright, beautiful, choice, exquisite, (n) penalty, amercement, (v) punish; antonyms (adj) thick, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, wide, 4. pretty; synonyms (adv) very, fairly, jolly, quite, rather, somewhat, moderately, (adj) fair, graceful, charming, cute, neat, pleasing, smart, comely, 5. nice; synonyms (adj) fastidious, good, kind, likable, correct, decent, difficult, enjoyable, exact, particular, precise, minute, suitable, discriminating, curious; antonym (adj) horrible, **6.** lovely; *synonyms* (*adj*) enchanting, lovable, alluring, adorable, endearing, gorgeous, gracious, appealing, delectable, glamorous, heavenly, stunning, divine, amiable, (n) beauty; antonyms (adj) hideous, terrible.
- **гарно 1.** well (добре); *synonyms* (adv) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, good, (adj) healthy, fit, shaft, sound, robust, (n) fountain, spring, pit, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous, 2. nicely; *synonyms* (adv) well, gently, agreeably, exactly, pleasantly, pleasingly, subtly, correctly, daintily, delicately, deliciously, (adj) effectually; antonym (adv) unpleasantly.
- **гарячий** hot; *synonyms* (*adj*) warm, ardent, boiling, burning, feverish, fiery, flaming, fresh, blistering, eager, enthusiastic, fast, peppery, pungent, spicy; *antonyms* (*adj*) mild, cool, cold, freezing, airy, bland, chilly.
- **гарячка** fever; *synonyms* (*n*) delirium, feverishness, frenzy, heat, pyrexia, febricity, excitement, restlessness, craze, enthusiasm, pain, rage, disease, fury, lather.
- **Гасіння** extinction; *synonyms* (*n*) destruction, extermination, end, expiration, obliteration, cessation, expiry, devastation, dissolution, demise, effacement, extinguishing, quenching, ruin, (*v*) death; *antonyms* (*n*) survival, preservation.
- **ΓΑΤΥΡΙΟΚ** brand; *synonyms* (n) badge, blade, class, kind, stain, type, emblem, falchion, make, nature, slur, (ν) mark, denounce, (adj) stigma, blot.
- **ΓαΨΟΚ** hook; *synonyms* (n) clasp, crook, claw, crotchet, draw, lure, trap, anchor, (ν) catch, bend, fasten, hitch, button, ensnare, attach.
- **гашиш** bang; *synonyms* (*n*) clap, beat, smack, knock, slap, smash, strike, blast, blow, bump, (*v*) hit, slam, bash, boom, clatter.
- **ΓΑΒΤΙΙCЯ** delay; *synonyms* (n) pause, arrest, deferment, wait, stay, deferral, extension, (v) defer, check, postpone, reserve, adjourn, break, detain, hesitate; *antonyms* (n) punctuality, decisiveness, (v) rush, advance.
- **ГВИНТІВКА** rifle; *synonyms* (*n*) gun, firearm, (*v*) pillage, plunder, despoil, loot, ransack, steal, foray, reave, take, deprive, gut, rob, sack.

- **гвоздика** pink; *synonyms* (*adj*) flower, pinkish, (*n*) red, crimson, rose, carmine, (*v*) knock, gore, impale, prick, punch, spear, spike, stab, enfilade.
- **renikontep** helicopter; *synonyms* (n) chopper, whirlybird, eggbeater, airliner, airplane, chop, cleaver, eggwhisk, jet, plane, pearly.
- ген gene; synonyms (n) chromosome, cistron.
- генерал general; synonyms (adj) common, comprehensive, national, universal, broad, commonplace, current, ecumenical, public, average, communal, (n) chief, commander, (v) customary, frequent; antonyms (adj) specific, individual, narrow, (n) particular.
- **renepauis** generation; *synonyms* (n) age, creation, epoch, era, genesis, contemporaries, formation, offspring, period, time, day, birth, family, lifetime, (v) germination.
- **генерувати** generate; *synonyms* (v) breed, develop, bear, beget, cause, engender, get, provoke, create, father, produce, raise, reproduce, yield, make.
- **генетичний** genetic; *synonyms* (*adj*) hereditary, genetical, genic, familial, patrimonial, ancestral, biological, birth, catching, communicable, contagious, contractable, (*v*) genital, formative, genial.
- **геніальність** genius; *synonyms* (n) capacity, ability, flair, faculty, brain, gift, prodigy, bent, aptitude, brilliance, (*adj*) endowment, cleverness, ingenuity, talent, turn; *antonym* (n) stupidity.
- **геній** genius; *synonyms* (*n*) capacity, ability, flair, faculty, brain, gift, prodigy, bent, aptitude, brilliance, (*adj*) endowment, cleverness, ingenuity, talent, turn; *antonym* (*n*) stupidity.
- **географічний** geographical; *synonyms* (*adj*) geographic, biological, ecological, environmental, local, physical, geological.
- **reorpaфis** geography; *synonyms* (n) topography, geographics, backcloth, backdrop, background, countryside, land, landscape, panorama, position, scene, scenery, setting, site, view.
- **геологічний** geological; *synonyms* (*adj*) geologic, biological, ecological, environmental, geognostical, geographical, physical.
- **reo.noris** geology; *synonyms* (*n*) formation, mineralogy, geoscopy, constitution, establishment, organisation, organization, shaping.
- repoïn heroin; synonyms (n) horse, junk, scag, smack, diacetylmorphine, asshole, bastard, buck, bull, bullshit, buncombe, bunk, bunkum, cavalry, (adi) cocaine.
- **героїчний** heroic; *synonyms* (*adj*) bold, brave, courageous, fearless, chivalrous, dauntless, gallant, grand, intrepid, valiant, daring, epic, heroical, imposing, impressive; *antonym* (*adj*) cowardly.
- **герой** hero; *synonyms* (n) champion, character, leader, protector, worthy, protagonist, warrior, bomber, celebrity, combatant, conqueror, defender, fighter.
- **repuor** duke; *synonyms* (n) prince, hand, chief, leader, (ν) pass, box, deliver.
- **герцогство** duchy; *synonyms* (n) dukedom, archduchy, archdukedom.

- **Геть 1**. away; *synonyms* (*adv*) apart, absent, aside, aloof, by, forth, way, hence, (*adj*) abroad, distant, wide, gone, missing, (*int*) out, off; **2**. out; *synonyms* (*adv*) forward, beyond, outwards, (*v*) reveal, disclose, discover, impart, (*adj*) away, extinct, outside, outward; *antonyms* (*adv*) in, (*prep*) inside.
- **гидкий** opposed; *synonyms* (*adj*) conflicting, contradictory, hostile, contrary, antagonistic, opposing, adverse, averse, contrasted, repugnant, incompatible, irreconcilable, counter, against, opposite.
- **гиря** bob; *synonyms* (*n*) shilling, jump, (*v*) curtsy, dock, bow, toss, dip, bend, bounce, cut, jiggle, reel, tail, tap, trim
- **FIFAHT** giant (велетень); *synonyms* (*adj*) colossal, gargantuan, gigantic, jumbo, elephantine, enormous, huge, immense, large, mammoth, vast, (*n*) monster, behemoth, colossus, ogre; *antonyms* (*adj*) small, tiny, miniature
- **ГІГАНТСЬКИЙ** giant (Велетень); *synonyms* (*adj*) colossal, gargantuan, gigantic, jumbo, elephantine, enormous, huge, immense, large, mammoth, vast, (*n*) monster, behemoth, colossus, ogre; *antonyms* (*adj*) small, tiny, miniature.
- riricha hygiene; synonyms (n) hygienics, sanitation, regimen, salutariness, spotlessness, wholesomeness.
- ΓἰΑ conductor; synonyms (n) leader, chief, director, chauffeur, commander, manager, pilot, ringleader, core, (v) guard, guide; antonym (n) insulator.
- **гідний** worthy; *synonyms* (*adj*) noble, estimable, good, meritorious, respectable, valuable, deserving, honorable, suitable, virtuous, worthwhile, admirable, desirable, (*n*) celebrity, notable; *antonym* (*adj*) unworthy.
- **гідність 1.** dignity; *synonyms* (*n*) decency, degree, grandeur, prestige, decorum, face, glory, honor, majesty, eminence, solemnity, elegance, fame, greatness, lordliness, **2.** virtue; *synonyms* (*n*) chastity, excellence, goodness, honesty, morality, quality, probity, efficacy, good, modesty, potency, strength, worth, (*adj*) merit, attribute; *antonyms* (*n*) wickedness, guilt, **3.** worth; *synonyms* (*n*) value, cost, price, virtue, importance, dignity, benefit, import, substance, fortune, profit, use, wealth, worthiness, advantage; *antonym* (*n*) worthlessness.
- **ГІЛКа 1**. branch; *synonyms* (*n*) arm, jump, wing, affiliate, ramus, member, division, limb, offshoot, outgrowth, section, shoot, (*v*) fork, diverge, divide, **2**. spray; *synonyms* (*n*) jet, mist, froth, aerosol, atomizer, foam, branch, (*v*) shower, splash, spout, spurt, dust, gush, scatter, spatter.
- **гіпотеза** hypothesis; *synonyms* (*n*) assumption, conjecture, supposition, guess, theory, speculation, belief, condition, idea, opinion, postulation, presumption, presupposition, surmise, concept.
- **гіркий** bitter; *synonyms* (*adj*) acrimonious, biting, acrid, sharp, acerbic, acid, caustic, keen, malicious, resentful, sour, virulent, acerb, cutting, (*n*) acerbity; *antonyms* (*adj*) mild, sweet, charitable, hot, kind, sugary.
- **ripκo** bitterly; *synonyms* (*adv*) bitter, bitingly, cruelly, sharply, sourly, coldly, acerbically, acidly, angrily, clashingly, conflictingly, coolly, cuttingly, (*adj*)

- painfully, sadly; *antonyms* (*adv*) graciously, harmoniously.
- **ΓΙΡΚΟΤΑ** bitterness; *synonyms* (n) acerbity, acrimony, animosity, gall, malice, resentment, acidity, asperity, bitter, enmity, hatred, hostility, rancor, sharpness, affliction; *antonym* (n) sweetness.
- **гірський** mountain (гора); *synonyms* (*n*) mount, heap, height, mass, peak, pile, stack, bundle, elevation, (*v*) mound, (*adj*) lead, millstone; *antonym* (*n*) dip.
- гірше worse; synonyms (adj) inferior, worser, impaired, junior, lesser, minor, poorer, subordinate, warre, waur, worsened, (n) disadvantage, loss, defeat, (v) discomfit; antonyms (adj) better, improved, healthier.
- **гірший** 1. worse; *synonyms* (*adj*) inferior, worser, impaired, junior, lesser, minor, poorer, subordinate, warre, waur, worsened, (*n*) disadvantage, loss, defeat, (*v*) discomfit; *antonyms* (*adj*) better, improved, healthier, 2. inferior; *synonyms* (*adj*) bad, secondary, humble, poor, cheap, petty, base, feeble, coarse, common, vulgar, contemptible, ignoble, less, (*prep*) below; *antonyms* (*adj*) choice, excellent, first-rate, high-class, premium, (*n*) superior, superscript.
- **ΓΙCTL** 1. guest; *synonyms* (*n*) stranger, caller, alien, customer, visitor, foreigner, client, visitant, 2. Visitor; *synonyms* (*n*) guest, company, tourist, traveler, inspector, sightseer, arrival, husband, supercargo.
- FJABA 1. chief; synonyms (adj) head, principal, cardinal, capital, arch, central, essential, first, main, (n) administrator, boss, captain, executive, leader, paramount; antonyms (adj) minor, associate, secondary, 2. chapter; synonyms (n) episode, branch, article, convocation, part, section, stage, caput, installment, 3. principal; synonyms (adj) master, leading, primary, grand, foremost, prime, great, fundamental, important, big, (n) chief, manager, corpus, general, lead.
- **ГЛАДЕНЬКИЙ** smooth; *synonyms* (*adj*) easy, calm, level, oily, facile, flat, flowing, fluent, fluid, glossy, graceful, greasy, (v) quiet, facilitate, even; *antonyms* (*adj*) rough, uneven, abrasive, coarse, crumpled, flaking, harsh, jerky, lined, peeling, prickly, ridged, wrinkled, corrugated, (v) wrinkle.
- **ГЛАДИТИ** press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- гладкий 1. even; synonyms (adv) yet, (adj) direct, equal, constant, equable, equivalent, flat, horizontal, identical, plane, regular, steady, (v) level, balance, smooth; antonyms (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, jagged, unequal, 2. fat; synonyms (adj) stout, corpulent, dense, thick, bulky, fatty, fertile, fleshy, gainful, greasy, great, (n) avoirdupois, blubber, cream, (v) fatten; antonyms (adj) thin, slim, skinny, slender, 3. smooth; synonyms (adj) easy, calm, oily, facile, flowing, fluent, fluid, glossy, graceful, liquid, mellow, polished, (v) quiet, facilitate, even; antonyms (adj) rough, abrasive, coarse, crumpled, flaking, harsh, jerky, lined, peeling, prickly, ridged, wrinkled, corrugated, (v) wrinkle, crease.
- гласність 1. daylight; *synonyms* (n) day, dawn, daybreak, light, morning, sunrise, clearance, daytime, sunup; *antonyms* (n) night, nighttime, **2**. publicity;

- *synonyms* (n) advertisement, promotion, advertising, notoriety, propaganda, exposure, buildup, disclosure.
- глек 1. jug; *synonyms* (n) jar, vase, bottle, container, pot, bucket, jugful, pail, pitcher, tankard, (v) jail, gaol, immure, imprison, lag, 2. jar; *synonyms* (n) jangle, blow, crock, jog, shake, amphora, crash, (v) jolt, clash, creak, bump, collide, jounce, grate, agitate.
- **глечик 1**. jug; *synonyms* (*n*) jar, vase, bottle, container, pot, bucket, jugful, pail, pitcher, tankard, (*v*) jail, gaol, immure, imprison, lag, **2**. jar; *synonyms* (*n*) jangle, blow, crock, jog, shake, amphora, crash, (*v*) jolt, clash, creak, bump, collide, jounce, grate, agitate.
- **глибина** 1. depth; *synonyms* (n) abyss, deepness, profoundness, intensity, profundity, abstruseness, wisdom, breadth, extent, height, strength, width, astuteness, draught, extremity, **2**. deep; *synonyms* (adj) thick, profound, absorbed, abstruse, broad, dark, rich, sound, strong, wide, esoteric, bright, large, abysmal, (v) intense; *antonyms* (adj) shallow, superficial, high, high-pitched, light, soft, weak, **3**. profound; *synonyms* (adj) deep, heavy, bottomless, important, solid, grave, obscure, utter, complete, exhaustive, intimate, recondite, shrewd, good, (n) impressive; *antonym* (adj) trivial.
- **глибокий** 1. deep; synonyms (adj) thick, profound, absorbed, abstruse, broad, dark, rich, sound, strong, wide, esoteric, bright, large, abysmal, (v) intense; antonyms (adj) shallow, superficial, high, high-pitched, light, soft, weak, 2. profound; synonyms (adj) deep, heavy, bottomless, important, solid, grave, obscure, utter, complete, exhaustive, intimate, recondite, shrewd, good, (n) impressive; antonym (adj) trivial.
- глибоко 1. deeply; synonyms (adv) deep, profoundly, very, highly, thickly, badly, completely, fast, greatly, intensely, strongly, thoroughly, sincerely; antonym (adv) superficially, 2. profoundly; synonyms (adv) deeply, extremely, exhaustively.
- **ГЛИбОЧІНЬ** depth; *synonyms* (n) abyss, deepness, profoundness, intensity, profundity, abstruseness, wisdom, breadth, extent, height, strength, width, astuteness, draught, extremity.
- **глина** clay; *synonyms* (n) soil, remains, pottery, dirt, dust, loam, mud, ashes, cadaver, (adj) earthen.
- **ГЛОбальний** global; *synonyms* (*adj*) general, international, overall, cosmopolitan, universal, worldwide, comprehensive, earthly, ecumenical, total, globose, globular, inclusive, orbicular, planetary; *antonyms* (*adj*) local, national.
- **глобус** sphere; *synonyms* (n) region, range, area, domain, province, realm, ball, circle, department, globe, round, ring, arena, compass, field.
- F.T.Y3.J. Sense; synonyms (n) intelligence, perception, meaning, sensation, logic, awareness, experience, feeling, idea, impression, notion, (v) feel, intellect, mind, perceive; antonyms (n) garbage, ludicrousness, nonsense, stupidity, foolishness, gibberish.
- глухий deaf; synonyms (adj) earless, blind, indifferent, unhearing, aspirated, atonic, deve, inattentive, oblivious, regardless, surd, thoughtless, unaware, unconcerned, (v) deafen; antonym (adj) hearing.
- **ГЛУХУВАТИЙ** deaf; *synonyms* (*adj*) earless, blind, indifferent, unhearing, aspirated, atonic, deve,

- inattentive, oblivious, regardless, surd, thoughtless, unaware, unconcerned, (v) deafen; *antonym* (adj) hearing
- **глушина** wilderness; *synonyms* (n) desert, wild, wasteland, solitude, wildness, (v) waste.
- глюкоза glucose; synonyms (n) caramel, damson.
- глядіти look; synonyms (v) seem, appear, expect, figure, attend, (n) face, gaze, appearance, aspect, air, countenance, expression, glance, guise, view.
- глянути look; *synonyms* (*v*) seem, appear, expect, figure, attend, (*n*) face, gaze, appearance, aspect, air, countenance, expression, glance, guise, view.
- **гнати 1**. blow (дути); *synonyms* (n) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (v) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (adj) gasp; *antonyms* (v) calm, save, 2. career; *synonyms* (n) calling, race, profession, vocation, business, craft, life, occupation, pursuit, (adj) job, occupational, (v) course, dash, speed, fly.
- **FHATUCH 1**. chase; *synonyms* (n) game, search, quest, (v) hunt, pursue, expel, follow, stalk, track, trail, chamfer, pursuit, race, seek, evict, **2**. pursue; *synonyms* (v) chase, dog, prosecute, course, haunt, hound, persist, tail, conduct, practice, court, keep, continue, engage, harass.
- **ГНИЛИЙ** rotten; *synonyms* (*adj*) bad, foul, poor, fetid, lousy, musty, off, putrid, ill, shabby, corrupt, crappy, decomposed, (*v*) decayed, rancid; *antonym* (*adj*) fresh.
- **ГНИТИ** decay; *synonyms* (*n*) decline, decomposition, ebb, corruption, disintegration, collapse, deterioration, (*v*) rot, decompose, blight, rust, crumble, corrupt, decrease, deteriorate; *antonym* (*n*) growth.
- **THUTTH 1.** corruption; *synonyms* (*n*) contamination, depravity, adulteration, pollution, bribery, filth, infection, taint, vitiation, canker, blight, foulness, impurity, contagion, (*adj*) shuffle; *antonyms* (*n*) purification, decency, honesty, incorruptness, **2.** decay; *synonyms* (*n*) decline, decomposition, ebb, corruption, disintegration, collapse, deterioration, (*v*) rot, decompose, rust, crumble, corrupt, decrease, deteriorate, disintegrate; *antonym* (*n*) growth.
- FHiB 1. anger; synonyms (n) displeasure, fury, rage, indignation, resentment, annoyance, (v) enrage, incense, aggravate, displease, exasperate, irritate, offend, wrath, fume; antonyms (n) pleasure, composure, (v) please, placate, pacify, calm, 2. passion; synonyms (n) affection, feeling, fervor, fire, love, anger, craving, desire, enthusiasm, heat, mania, fondness, ire, adoration, (v) ardor; antonyms (n) apathy, indifference.
- **ГНІВИТИ** anger; *synonyms* (*n*) displeasure, fury, rage, indignation, resentment, annoyance, (*v*) enrage, incense, aggravate, displease, exasperate, irritate, offend, wrath, fume; *antonyms* (*n*) pleasure, composure, (*v*) please, placate, pacify, calm.
- **ГНІВНИЙ** angry; *synonyms* (*adj*) furious, incensed, provoked, fierce, irate, raging, vehement, maddened, fuming, outraged, piqued, splenetic, angered, annoyed, boiling; *antonyms* (*adj*) calm, pleased, gentle.
- **FHIBHO** angrily; *synonyms* (*adv*) fiercely, passionately, furiously, acrimoniously, angerly, ardently, brutally, cholericly, coldly, coolly, cynically, ferociously, fervently, frigidly, frostily; *antonym* (*adv*) mildly.

- **гніздо** nest; *synonyms* (n) den, lair, hole, burrow, home, herd. (v) nestle. (adi) brood. hive, litter.
- **ГНІЙ** matter; *synonyms* (n) event, affair, business, concern, issue, material, substance, incident, article, body, import, interest, item, (v) case, count.
- FHIT 1. pressure; synonyms (n) force, compulsion, constraint, duress, exigency, influence, insistence, load, pinch, urge, weight, emergency, (v) drive, press, coerce; antonym (n) persuasion, 2. oppression; synonyms (n) injustice, abuse, despotism, tyranny, dictatorship, stress, wrong, severity, violence, compression, persecution, (v) hardship, grievance, (adj) autocracy, molestation.
- **гнітючий** depressing; *synonyms* (*adj*) cheerless, dark, dismal, gloomy, sad, oppressive, bleak, blue, desolate, dreary, grim, black, chill, depressed, depressive; *antonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, heartening, inspiring, bright, cheery.
- **гноблення** oppression; *synonyms* (*n*) injustice, abuse, despotism, tyranny, weight, dictatorship, stress, wrong, severity, violence, compression, (*v*) hardship, grievance, (*adi*) autocracy, molestation.
- **FHYTH 1.** curve; *synonyms* (n) bend, crook, bow, arc, curvature, kink, round, bender, (v) curl, turn, arch, hook, wind, distort, (adj) flex, **2.** bend; *synonyms* (n) elbow, twist, angle, bending, buckle, (v) curve, crouch, stoop, deflect, fold, loop, swerve, contort, cower, deform; *antonyms* (v) straighten, square, **3.** bow; *synonyms* (n) obeisance, stem, vault, head, nose, (v) duck, incline, kowtow, defer, kneel, nod, submit, bob, squat, sag.
- ГНУЧКИЙ 1. flexible; synonyms (adj) elastic, adaptable, pliable, yielding, lissome, pliant, soft, supple, facile, adjustable, bendable, compliant, ductile, flexile, lithe; antonyms (adj) inflexible, rigid, fixed, obstinate, stiff, stubborn, 2. versatile; synonyms (adj) changeable, variable, various, mobile, fickle, capricious, inconstant, unsteady, clever.
- **гнучкість** flexibility; *synonyms* (n) pliability, spring, adaptability, elasticity, suppleness, litheness, malleability, tractability, versatility, bendability; *antonyms* (n) inflexibility, obstinacy, rigidity, stubbornness, severity.
- **ΓΟΒΙΡΚ** a speech; *synonyms* (n) address, delivery, expression, lecture, conversation, discourse, language, sermon, diction, communication, discussion, elocution, converse, (v) say, saying.
- **говіркий** talking; *synonyms* (v) mean, (n) talk, speech, articulation, communication, explanation, language, lecture, (adj) sound, good, healthy, heavy, intelligent, legal, levelheaded.
- **FOROPHTH 1.** Say; *synonyms* (*v*) remark, articulate, express, pronounce, assert, enunciate, observe, maintain, order, read, speak, state, tell, (*n*) declare, voice, **2.** tell; *synonyms* (*v*) relate, divulge, impart, recount, reveal, explain, announce, command, communicate, describe, distinguish, enumerate, inform, (*n*) disclose, count; *antonym* (*v*) request, **3.** talk; *synonyms* (*v*) gossip, converse, lecture, chatter, address, chat, prattle, prate, (*n*) discourse, language, colloquy, conversation, dialogue, palaver, speech, **4.** speak; *synonyms* (*v*) deliver, say, utter, recite, talk, emit, mouth, vocalize, mumble, declaim, reason, tongue, bespeak, handle, accost.

- **година 1.** hour; *synonyms* (*n*) epoch, time, hr, moment, nonce, crisis, day, minute, lifetime, month, quarter, quinquennium, week, year, opportunity, **2.** time; *synonyms* (*n*) hour, period, duration, era, measure, season, spell, age, instant, interval, space, tempo, sentence, beat, occasion; *antonym* (*n*) death, **3.** o'clock.
- **годинник 1.** watch; *synonyms* (*v*) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (*n*) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (*adj*) vigilance, **2**. clock; *synonyms* (*n*) alarm, chronograph, knock, whack, punch, thump, face, heart, (*v*) time, measure, stopwatch, attack, count, inspect, note.
- **годитися 1.** suit; *synonyms* (*n*) lawsuit, plea, action, case, (*v*) agree, fit, correspond, accommodate, adapt, answer, become, match, meet, please, adjust, **2.** become; *synonyms* (*v*) be, grow, suit, arise, get, sit, come, fall, go, make, turn, wax, change, result, arrive, **3.** fit; *synonyms* (*v*) square, accord, dress, befit, assemble, (*adj*) decorous, apt, applicable, appropriate, becoming, decent, good, (*n*) convulsion, attack, burst; *antonyms* (*adj*) unfit, inappropriate, unwell.
- **ГОДІВНИЦЯ** rack; *synonyms* (*n*) manger, wrack, bracket, cage, stand, boot, ledge, (*v*) torture, excruciate, torment, afflict, agonize, pain, bedevil, crucify.
- **годувальниця** nurse; *synonyms* (*n*) nurture, doctor, amah, (*v*) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- годувати 1. feed; synonyms (v) eat, dine, nurture, browse, board, diet, encourage, nourish, fatten, consume, feast, (n) aliment, food, provender, fare; antonym (v) starve, 2. meal; synonyms (n) feed, flour, repast, banquet, spread, bite, 3. nurse; synonyms (n) doctor, amah, care, (v) attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed, harbour.
- **гойдалка** swing; *synonyms* (*n*) sweep, range, (*v*) sway, fluctuate, oscillate, dangle, hang, rock, beat, brandish, change, move, shake, turn, vibrate.
- **гойдання** swinging; *synonyms* (*adj*) swaying, excessive, exorbitant, extravagant, hanging, inordinate, lilting, outrageous, pendulous, preposterous, (*n*) swing.
- **гойдати** rock; *synonyms* (*n*) boulder, calculus, pillar, (*v*) jar, sway, cradle, jolt, shake, toss, waver, quake, pitch, reel. (*adi*) pebble, stone.
- **ГОЙДАТИСЯ** bob; *synonyms* (*n*) shilling, jump, (*v*) curtsy, dock, bow, toss, dip, bend, bounce, cut, jiggle, reel, tail, tap, trim.
- **ΓΟΛ** goal; synonyms (n) aim, butt, design, destination, end, purpose, basket, ambition, intent, intention, object, objective, target, aspiration, limit.
- **голий 1.** naked; *synonyms* (*adj*) bald, bare, exposed, nude, open, barren, bleak, raw, unclothed, defenseless, defenceless, undraped, alone, denuded, destitute; *antonyms* (*adj*) covered, concealed, **2**. desert (пустеля); *synonyms* (*n*) wilderness, (*v*) abandon, escape, defect, ditch, forsake, leave, relinquish, abscond, fail, (*adj*) waste, desolate, merit, wild, worth; *antonyms* (*n*) bog, (*v*) stay, **3**. bare; *synonyms* (*adj*) naked, austere, stark, devoid, mere, plain, vacant, vacuous, simple, (*v*) empty, show, disclose, denude, expose, reveal; *antonyms* (*adj*) cultivated, ornate, (*v*) cover.

- **голка 1**. needle; *synonyms* (*n*) injection, pointer, awl, plunger, probe, rudder, spike, (*v*) annoy, goad, irritate, sting, rile, aggravate, gall, nag, **2**. spine; *synonyms* (*n*) backbone, thorn, point, prickle, quill, back, barb, rachis, pricker, ridge, spur, sticker.
- голобля shaft; synonyms (n) arrow, handle, axis, beam, pit, dart, pillar, axle, bar, lance, mine, post, ray, well, (v) cheat
- **голова 1.** head; *synonyms* (*n*) chief, captain, front, point, boss, foam, froth, crown, chieftain, executive, chair, brain, (*v*) capital, direct, lead; *antonyms* (*n*) end, subordinate, (*v*) follow, **2.** chairman; *synonyms* (*n*) chairperson, chairwoman, director, president, administrator, administration, gig, introducer, monitor, prexy, professorship, spokesman, **3.** president (президент); *synonyms* (*n*) chairman, leader, head, principal, speaker, emperor, imperator, king, majesty.
- **головка** head (голова); *synonyms* (*n*) chief, captain, front, point, boss, foam, froth, crown, chieftain, executive, chair, brain, (*v*) capital, direct, lead; *antonyms* (*n*) end, subordinate, (*v*) follow.
- головний 1. principal; synonyms (adj) master, cardinal, capital, leading, primary, grand, first, foremost, prime, great, (n) chief, head, leader, main, manager; antonym (adj) minor, 2. chief; synonyms (adj) principal, arch, central, essential, sovereign, basic, (n) administrator, boss, captain, executive, paramount, superior, top, chieftain, commander; antonyms (adj) associate, secondary, 3. prime; synonyms (adj) early, fundamental, excellent, exquisite, overriding, premier, (n) best, flower, bloom, blossom, cream, efflorescence, elite, (v) ground, coach, 4. governing; synonyms (adj) dominant, ruling, ascendant, predominant, prevailing, (n) governance, administration, government, 5. capital; synonyms (n) city, stock, assets, cash, funds, means, money, resources, wealth, wherewithal, center, chapiter, fortune, (adj) dandy, fine, **6**. basic; synonyms (adj) initial, primordial, basal, base, bottom, introductory, key, necessary, plain, primitive, simple, vital, beginning, crucial, (n) staple; antonyms (adj) complex, extra, 7. broad; synonyms (adj) wide, ample, comprehensive, extensive, general, large, sweeping, vast, free, big, blanket, capacious, deep, full, (n) female; antonyms (adj) narrow, specific, thin, 8. grand; synonyms (adj) gorgeous, dignified, elevated, eminent, exalted, important, majestic, superb, beautiful, high, massive, brilliant, famous, (n) glorious, noble; antonyms (adj) unimpressive, humble, modest, 9. head (голова); synonyms (n) front, point, foam, froth, crown, chair, brain, director, end, forefront, heading, (v) direct, lead, command, guide; antonyms (n) subordinate, (v) follow, 10. central; synonyms (adj) inner, pivotal, centrical, core, critical, focal, halfway, intermediate, major, median, middle, primal, inside, (n) umbilical, exchange; antonyms (adj) peripheral, regional, tangential, 11. main; synonyms (adj) prominent, uppermost, significant, favorite, outstanding, (n) ocean, sea, conduit, channel, briny, chimney, dike, flue, funnel, gully; antonyms (adj) auxiliary, supplementary, 12. primary; synonyms (adj) elementary, original, preliminary, aboriginal, primeval, highest, elemental, firsthand,

- opening, rudimentary, ultimate, underlying, earliest, (n) radical, election, 13. paramount; synonyms (adj) supreme, topmost, crowning, maximum, especial, preeminent, preponderant, (v) greatest, utmost.
- **головування** presidency; *synonyms* (*n*) administration, presidentship, government, brass, disposal, establishment, governance, organisation, organization, presidence, executive, management.
- **голод 1.** famine; *synonyms* (*n*) dearth, scarcity, deficiency, deficit, drought, hunger, shortage, starvation, poverty, lack, paucity, want, **2**. hunger; *synonyms* (*n*) desire, thirst, appetite, craving, wish, itch, eagerness, famine, longing, yen, (*v*) crave, ache, long, lust, yearn; *antonym* (*n*) moderation.
- **голодний** hungry; *synonyms* (*adj*) avid, eager, esurient, famished, greedy, ravenous, starving, desirous, meager, starveling, barren, keen, peckish, (*v*) craving, (*adv*) empty; *antonyms* (*adj*) full, sated, satiated.
- голодувати hunger; synonyms (n) desire, thirst, appetite, craving, wish, itch, eagerness, famine, longing, starvation, (v) crave, want, ache, long, lust; antonym (n) moderation.
- **голомозий** bald (лисий); *synonyms* (*adj*) bare, hairless, simple, austere, meager, threadbare, raw, barefaced, dry, forthright, mere, naked, nude, plain, stark; *antonym* (*adj*) hairv.
- **FOJICE 1.** Voice; *synonyms* (*n*) speech, sound, language, part, suffrage, vote, (*v*) enunciate, express, pronounce, say, speak, utter, vocalize, articulate, state, **2.** vote; *synonyms* (*n*) ballot, election, poll, franchise, voting, choice, balloting, (*v*) voice, elect, **3.** organ; *synonyms* (*n*) instrument, member, limb, agency, harmonium, medium, means, journal, channel.
- **голослівний** naked; *synonyms* (*adj*) bald, bare, exposed, nude, open, barren, bleak, raw, unclothed, defenseless, defenceless, undraped, alone, denuded, destitute; *antonyms* (*adj*) covered, concealed.
- **голосний** loud; *synonyms* (*adj*) flashy, garish, gaudy, blatant, boisterous, brassy, forte, high, brazen, jazzy, clamorous, colorful, flash, meretricious, (*adv*) aloud; *antonyms* (*adj*) soft, gentle, quiet, tasteful, low, subdued, subtle
- **голосно** aloud; *synonyms* (adv) loud, loudly, clamorously, clearly, distinctly, intelligibly, obstreperously, plainly, vociferously.
- **голосовий** vocal; *synonyms* (*adj*) oral, spoken, unwritten, outspoken, sonant, sonorous, vowel, eloquent, instrumental, sung; *antonym* (*adj*) quiet.
- **ronocybahha 1.** voting; *synonyms* (*adj*) elective, (*n*) vote, ballot, balloting, poll, election, suffrage, division, appointment, determination, **2.** vote; *synonyms* (*n*) franchise, voting, choice, (*v*) voice, elect, **3.** poll; *synonyms* (*n*) head, crown, pate, inquiry, capitulum, count, (*v*) canvass, parrot, pollard, canvas, list, muster, research, survey, enumerate, **4.** ballot; *synonyms* (*n*) plebiscite, (*v*) ticket, **5.** division; *synonyms* (*n*) department, disagreement, allotment, branch, break, class, compartment, part, section, split, cleavage, classification, category, (*adj*) constituent, (*v*) distribution; *antonyms* (*n*) closeness, convergence, estimation, unification.

- **FOJIOCYBATH 1.** Vote; *synonyms* (*n*) ballot, election, poll, suffrage, franchise, voting, choice, balloting, (*v*) voice, elect, **2.** ballot; *synonyms* (*n*) vote, plebiscite, (*v*) ticket, survey, **3.** poll; *synonyms* (*n*) head, crown, pate, inquiry, capitulum, count, (*v*) canvass, parrot, pollard, canvas, list, muster, research, enumerate, jay.
- **гольф** golf; *synonyms* (*n*) croquet, pallone, polo, tipcat. **гомілка** leg; *synonyms* (*n*) stage, blackleg, branch, peg, post, arm, column, limb, member, phase, rook, shank, support, fork.
- FOMIH noise (IIIYM); synonyms (n) clatter, clamor, hubbub, racket, sound, din, disturbance, echo, uproar, buzz, clang, commotion, crack, crash, (v) fame; antonyms (n) silence, quiet.
- **гомосексуалізм** homosexuality; *synonyms* (*n*) gayness, homoeroticism, homosexualism, bisexuality.
- гомосексуаліст homosexual; *synonyms* (*adj*) dykey, (*n*) gay, lesbian, homo, dyke, human, man, queen.
- **FOHHTBA** pursuit; *synonyms* (*n*) quest, chase, hunt, persecution, search, career, interest, job, business, employment, performance, following, occupation, pastime, aspiration.
- **ΓΟΗΟΡΙΑ** fee; *synonyms* (*n*) commission, charge, compensation, premium, consideration, due, expense, payment, price, salary, toll, wage, allowance, cost, (*ν*) tip.
- горіти burn; synonyms (v) bite, glow, blaze, incinerate, scorch, sting, bake, beam, boil, cremate, flare, ignite, sunburn, (n) fire, (adj) flush; antonym (v) dawdle.
- ropa 1. mountain; synonyms (n) mount, heap, height, mass, peak, pile, stack, bundle, elevation, (v) mound, (adj) lead, millstone; antonym (n) dip, 2. hill; synonyms (n) bank, gradient, ascent, acclivity, embankment, grade, hillock, knoll, rise, slope, hammock, decline, eminence, hump, (v) declivity; antonym (n) vale.
- rop6 hill; synonyms (n) height, bank, gradient, mound, ascent, elevation, acclivity, embankment, grade, hillock, knoll, pile, rise, (v) declivity, dip; antonym (n) vale.
- **гордий** proud; *synonyms* (*adj*) arrogant, dignified, disdainful, haughty, lofty, exalted, conceited, egotistical, gallant, lordly, majestic, overbearing, pompous, imperious, elated; *antonyms* (*adj*) humble, modest, ashamed, embarrassed.
- **ΓΟΡΡΙΊCΤΣ** pride; *synonyms* (n) arrogance, boast, conceit, haughtiness, egotism, lordliness, vanity, assumption, insolence, disdain, hauteur, triumph, presumption, glory, (ν) plume; *antonyms* (n) humility, modesty.
- **гордо** proudly; *synonyms* (*adv*) haughtily, arrogantly, boastfully, triumphantly, brag, bragly, conceitedly, disdainfully, finely, gloriously, pompously, pridingly, snootily, successfully, superciliously; *antonyms* (*adv*) sorrowfully, humbly.
- гордовитий 1. proud; synonyms (adj) arrogant, dignified, disdainful, haughty, lofty, exalted, conceited, egotistical, gallant, lordly, majestic, overbearing, pompous, imperious, elated; antonyms (adj) humble, modest, ashamed, embarrassed, 2. arrogant; synonyms (adj) presumptuous, proud, dogmatic, boastful, condescending, domineering, insolent, supercilious, vain, cavalier, chesty, cocky, contemptuous, high, masterful; antonym (adj) self-effacing.

- rope 1. grief; synonyms (n) affliction, dolor, anguish, distress, agony, pain, regret, wound, chagrin, concern, pity, bitterness, dejection, desolation, (adj) sore; antonyms (n) joy, happiness, 2. sortow; synonyms (n) grief, mourning, sadness, contrition, heartache, misery, penitence, remorse, repentance, heartbreak, hardship, compunction, (v) mourn, lament, grieve; antonym (n) delight, 3. distress; synonyms (n) trouble, anxiety, calamity, difficulty, hurt, torture, adversity, alarm, (v) afflict, torment, bother, upset, worry, discomfort, annoy; antonyms (v) comfort, please, 4. pain (біль); synonyms (n) ache, ill, nuisance, harass, annoyance, evil, plague, bite, cramp, hurting, pang, (v) agonize, inconvenience, injure, ail; antonym (n) pleasure.
- горезвісний notorious; synonyms (adj) famous, infamous, known, illustrious, disreputable, egregious, flagrant, celebrated, noted, prominent, famed, familiar, well-known, (v) notable, (n) errant; antonym (adj) unknown.
- **горизонт** horizon; *synonyms* (*n*) perspective, prospect, purview, reach, skyline, view, vista, amphitheater, arena, boundary, circle, eyeshot, aspect, distance, panorama.
- **горизонтальний** horizontal; *synonyms* (*adj*) even, flat, level, plane, straight, direct, prostrate, smooth; *antonym* (*adj*) vertical.
- **горище** attic; *synonyms* (*n*) garret, loft, clerestory, bean, bonce, dome, floor, head, (*adj*) chaste, elegant, pure, classical, artistic, correct, disconcerted.
- **горілий** burnt; *synonyms* (v) brent, (*adj*) burned, adust, baked, heated, sunburnt, adusted, arid, combust, dry, overcooked, overdone, consumed, dehydrated, desiccated; *antonym* (*adj*) underdone.
- **горіння** burning; *synonyms* (*adj*) ardent, ablaze, afire, blazing, boiling, flaming, hot, passionate, aflame, alight, (*n*) combustion, firing, glowing, zealous, burn; *antonyms* (*adj*) cold, cool, trivial.
- **горіти** burn; *synonyms* (*v*) bite, glow, blaze, incinerate, scorch, sting, bake, beam, boil, cremate, flare, ignite, sunburn, (*n*) fire, (*adi*) flush; *antonym* (*v*) dawdle.
- ropix nut; synonyms (n) lunatic, crackpot, crank, eccentric, egg, freak, fruitcake, kernel, head, fruit, kook, maniac, nutcase, screwball, seed.
- **ΓΟΡΙΧΗ** nuts; *synonyms* (*adj*) crazy, insane, balmy, crackers, nutty, barmy, batty, daft, dotty, loony, loopy, mad, crazed, wild, deranged; *antonyms* (*adj*) sane, sensible
- **горло** throat; *synonyms* (*n*) gullet, orifice, pharynx, gorge, mouth, muzzle, chimney, flue, funnel, nostril, nozzle, quarl, shaft, sucker.
- **горловина** throat; *synonyms* (*n*) gullet, orifice, pharynx, gorge, mouth, muzzle, chimney, flue, funnel, nostril, nozzle, quarl, shaft, sucker.
- город 1. garden; synonyms (n) field, bed, orchard, grounds, park, patch, plaisance, plot, garth, lawn, backyard, court, (v) farm, cultivate, (adj) commonplace,
  2. yard; synonyms (n) courtyard, garden, close, quadrangle, enclosure, beehive, bindery, chiliad, g, grand, m, nailery, pace, slip, terrace.
- **городник** gardener; *synonyms* (n) horticulturist, nurseryman, farmer, husbandman.

- **городянин** citizen; *synonyms* (n) civilian, denizen, inhabitant, national, resident, native, subject, voter; *antonym* (n) foreigner.
- **городянка** citizen; *synonyms* (*n*) civilian, denizen, inhabitant, national, resident, native, subject, voter; *antonym* (*n*) foreigner.
- **горщик** pot; *synonyms* (*n*) caldron, boiler, can, bucket, belly, cannabis, commode, container, flowerpot, grass, heap, jug, (*v*) bottle, (*adj*) deal, marijuana.
- **госпіталь** hospital (лікарня); *synonyms* (*n*) infirmary, home, institution, sanitarium, sickroom, spital, inn, sickbay, (*adj*) hospitable.
- господар 1. host; synonyms (n) crowd, army, flock, horde, mob, legion, troop, emcee, mass, multitude, swarm, throng, heap, array, battalion, 2. master; synonyms (n) captain, instructor, head, boss, leader, gentleman, (v) conquer, control, command, defeat, dominate, (adj) chief, original, ace, expert, 3. boss; synonyms (n) governor, overseer, superior, ruler, administrator, director, executive, foreman, manager, principal, stud, superintendent, (v) administer, govern, direct, 4. landlord; synonyms (n) host, proprietor, owner, slumlord, publican, freeholder, hotelier, hotelkeeper, saw, vendor; antonyms (n) tenant, occupant, 5. proprietor; synonyms (n) possessor, landlord, holder, master, employer, landowner, 6. owner; synonym (n) landholder, 7. lord; synonyms (n) noble, sir, seignior, almighty, creator, maker, mistress, nobleman, overlord, impropriator.
- **ГОСПОДАРСТВО** economy; *synonyms* (*n*) frugality, parsimony, saving, thrift, conservation, efficiency, husbandry, prudence, stinginess, thriftiness, brevity, cut, (*adj*) system, arrangement, array; *antonym* (*n*) extravagance.
- **господарський** economic; *synonyms* (*adj*) commercial, financial, profitable, efficient, economical, fiscal, industrial, mercantile, pecuniary, trade, monetary, breadand-butter, budgetary, helpful, material.
- **господиня** housewife; *synonyms* (n) homemaker, wife, hussif, hussy, (v) housewive.
- **Господь** lord; *synonyms* (*n*) chief, master, noble, sir, seignior, almighty, creator, gentleman, maker, mistress, nobleman, overlord, ruler, captain, impropriator.
- **гостинність 1.** hospitality; *synonyms* (*n*) generosity, friendliness, welcome, kindness, amiability, warmth, flexibility, hospitableness, hospitage, housekeeping, xenodochy, accommodation, affability, companionship, comradeship; *antonym* (*n*) unfriendliness, **2.** welcome (вітати); *synonyms* (*adj*) acceptable, pleasant, agreeable, pleasing, enjoyable, (*v*) accept, greet, invite, receive, hail, entertain, (*n*) salute, hospitality, reception, embrace; *antonyms* (*adj*) unwelcome, unwanted, (*v*) reject.
- **гострий** 1. acute; *synonyms* (*adj*) sharp, incisive, intense, keen, penetrating, critical, piercing, severe, shrewd, shrill, smart, strong, acrid, acuate, (v) high; *antonyms* (*adj*) dull, obtuse, 2. sharp; *synonyms* (*adj*) acute, bitter, intelligent, acid, harsh, pointed, pungent, quick, alert, caustic, cutting, piquant, (v) biting, brisk, clever; *antonyms* (*adj*) blunt, mild, gentle, rounded, sweet, bland, blurred, naive, round, smooth, 3. eager;

synonyms (adj) avid, desirous, ardent, earnest, agog, ambitious, enthusiastic, zealous, industrious, studious, active, burning, craving, excited, fervent; antonyms (adj) indifferent, apathetic, disinterested, unconcerned, 4. quick (швидкий); synonyms (adj) bright, prompt, agile, hasty, nimble, speedy, alive, cursory, dexterous, expeditious, hurried, immediate, instant, lively, (adv) fast; antonyms (adj) slow, leisurely, 5. subtle; synonyms (adj) delicate, nice, astute, elusive, exquisite, insidious, sly, discerning, cunning, fine, ingenious, refined, ethereal, (v) crafty, sagacious; antonyms (adj) obvious, loud, 6. keen; synonyms (adj) eager, discriminating, hungry, impatient, perceptive, dry, acrimonious, anxious, bleak, fierce, (v) fresh, howl, moan, (n) cry, dirge; antonym (adj) unenthusiastic, 7. pointed; synonyms (adj) poignant, marked, pithy, acuminate, barbed, prickly, short, meaningful, thorny, angular, emphatic, jagged, peaked, spiky, tapering.

**гостролист** holly; *synonym* (*adv*) wholly. **готель** 1. hotel; *synonyms* (*n*) lodge, house, inn, tavern, spa, lodging, mansion, abode, accommodations, audience, bar, box, castle, chateau, cottage, 2. inn; *synonyms* (*n*) hostel, hotel, hostelry, pub, saloon.

**готичний** gothic; *synonyms* (*adj*) medieval, mediaeval, doggerel, outlandish, rude, tramontane, unclassical, chivalric, primitive, quaint, knightly.

FOTIBEA cash; synonyms (n) ready, bread, capital, change, funds, money, coin, coins, currency, exchange, means, needful, wealth, (v) encash, liquidate; antonym (n) credit.

**готовий 1**. ready; *synonyms* (*adj*) fit, prompt, quick, nimble, apt, deft, disposed, finished, handy, (v) prepare, fix, willing, (n) available, dexterous, eager; *antonyms* (*adj*) unprepared, unwilling, **2**. willing; *synonyms* (*adj*) agreeable, ready, spontaneous, voluntary, amenable, inclined, prepared, enthusiastic, unforced, consenting, obliging, content, desirous, game, glad; *antonym* (*adj*) reluctant, **3**. prepared; *synonyms* (*adj*) fitted, fain, ripe, competent, primed, completed, efficient, mature, complete, equipped, able, capable, destined, initiated, watchful, **4**. ripe; *synonyms* (*adj*) adult, advanced, good, perfect, matured, consummate, right, (v) mellow; *antonym* (*adj*) green.

**ΓΟΤΟΒΗΙCTЬ** 1. willingness; *synonyms* (*n*) readiness, alacrity, obedience, promptness, desire, appetite, volition, aptitude, amity, benevolence, conformity, favor, generosity, preparation, support; *antonym* (*n*) unwillingness, 2. readiness; *synonyms* (*n*) facility, ease, dexterity, eagerness, expedition, knack, quickness, fitness, maturity, promptitude, rapidity, skill, speed, (*ν*) preparedness, ripeness.

**FOTYBATH 1.** prepare; *synonyms* (v) arrange, fix, form, plan, dress, coach, devise, lay, make, set, adjust, concoct, cook, equip, fit, **2.** cook; *synonyms* (n) chef, (v) boil, bake, brew, prepare, falsify, grill, poach, roast, simmer, stew, coddle, heat, do, fake, **3.** do; *synonyms* (v) act, cheat, commit, accomplish, complete, conduct, perform, achieve, practice, defraud, answer, build, (n) function, occasion, bash; *antonyms* (v) neglect, unmake.

**ΓΟΤΥΒΑΤΗCЯ** prepare; *synonyms* (ν) arrange, fix, form, plan, dress, coach, devise, lay, make, set, adjust, concoct, cook, equip, fit.

rpa 1. game; synonyms (n) amusement, fun, entertainment, competition, contest, diversion, match, play, prey, quarry, sport, (adj) fearless, (v) bet, gamble, wager, 2. play; synonyms (v) act, pastime, enact, exercise, perform, joke, execute, fiddle, flirt, (n) frolic, game, gambol, romp, jest, caper; antonym (v) work, 3. acting; synonyms (adj) active, interim, temporary, provisional, (n) enactment, drama, playing; antonym (adj) permanent, 4. performance; synonyms (n) discharge, achievement, execution, fulfillment, observance, accomplishment, deed, completion, exploit, implementation, operation, recital, doing, (v) action, efficiency; antonyms (n) omission, practice.

грабувати rob; *synonyms* (v) filch, pinch, deprive, pilfer, pillage, plunder, rifle, fleece, lift, purloin, steal, pick, divest, defraud, despoil.

**гравець** player; *synonyms* (*n*) musician, actor, participant, contestant, histrion, instrumentalist, performer, thespian, artiste, competitor, artist, athlete, entrant.

**гравій** gravel; *synonyms* (n) grit, (v) bedevil, get, nonplus, rag, baffle, bewilder, flummox, mystify, perplex, puzzle, (adj) bother, dirt, grating, gravelly.

**ΓΡΑΒΙΡΥΒΑΤΙΙ** style; *synonyms* (n) fashion, name, form, kind, method, mode, pattern, sort, cast, class, (ν) call, entitle, cut, (adj) manner, character.

**гравітаційний** gravitational; *synonym* (*adj*) gravitative.

**rpaBitaqia** gravity; *synonyms* (*n*) earnestness, solemnity, graveness, gravitation, seriousness, significance, weight, sedateness, austerity, importance, moment, staidness, gloominess, sobriety, (*v*) poise; *antonyms* (*n*) flippancy, insignificance, lightheartedness.

градієнт gradient; *synonyms* (n) grade, slope, pitch, tilt, declivity, hill, inclination, incline, rise, slant, abruptness, descent, ramp, (v) acclivity, ascent.

градус 1. degree; *synonyms* (n) class, extent, condition, level, order, place, rank, title, caliber, status, amount, caste, gradation, grade, height, 2. grade; *synonyms* (n) degree, brand, category, gradient, score, form, group, quality, slope, division, plane, (v) classify, evaluate, range, appraise.

граматика grammar; synonyms (n) rudiments, elements, praxis, punctuation, outlines, (v) initiation.

граматичний grammatical; synonym (adj) grammatic. грамотність literacy; synonyms (n) education, scholarship, enlightenment, erudition, articulacy, articulateness, background, learning, proficiency, refinement; antonym (n) illiteracy.

**гран** grain; *synonyms* (*n*) corn, crumb, bit, berry, cereal, fragment, atom, character, grist, kernel, scrap, speck, buckwheat, cast, iota.

**грандіозний** grand; *synonyms* (*adj*) excellent, gorgeous, dignified, elevated, eminent, exalted, important, majestic, superb, beautiful, high, massive, (*n*) glorious, noble, (*v*) great; *antonyms* (*adj*) unimpressive, humble, modest.

**границя 1**. bound; *synonyms* (*v*) leap, border, bounce, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, (*n*) spring, jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, hop; *antonym* 

- (adj) free, 2. boundary; synonyms (n) bound, area, end, perimeter, periphery, brink, fringe, frontier, line, margin, outskirts, rim, verge, bounds, circuit, 3. limit; synonyms (n) demarcation, extremity, (v) restrict, curb, restrain, abridge, check, close, constrain, curtail, cramp, control, define, delimit, (prep) extent; antonyms (n) center, extension, minimum, (v) broaden, extend.
- граничний 1. marginal; synonyms (adj) borderline, border, peripheral, edge, fringe, bare, minor, negligible, unimportant, fringy, hardscrabble, 2. overall; synonyms (adj) entire, total, whole, broad, complete, comprehensive, general, full, inclusive, aggregate, global, (adv) generally, everywhere, (n) smock, boilersuit, 3. supreme; synonyms (adj) dominant, maximum, paramount, head, chief, sovereign, consummate, extreme, preeminent, principal, superlative, uppermost, main, prime, (n) utmost.
- **граніт** granite; *synonyms* (n) brickwork, limestone, mineral, sandstone, stonework, (adj) stone, crag, crystal, flint, fossil, marble, pebble, quartz, rock.
- **грань 1.** basil; *synonyms* (*n*) basan, sheepskin, parsley, rosemary, sage, thyme, **2.** heel; *synonyms* (*n*) blackguard, counter, dog, cad, scoundrel, shoe, sole, villain, bounder, (*v*) list, lean, **3.** border; *synonyms* (*n*) margin, brink, extremity, fringe, bed, boundary, brim, limit, skirt, (*v*) edge, verge, abut, adjoin, hem, surround; *antonyms* (*n*) middle, (*v*) center, **4.** plane; *synonyms* (*n*) airplane, face, aeroplane, aircraft, degree, stage, surface, (*v*) flatten, shave, (*adj*) level, even, flat, horizontal, smooth, flush.
- грати 1. play; synonyms (v) act, pastime, enact, exercise, perform, joke, execute, fiddle, flirt, (n) frolic, game, sport, bet, diversion, gambol; antonym (v) work, 2. blow (дути); synonyms (n) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (v) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (adj) gasp; antonyms (v) calm, save, 3. perform; synonyms (v) accomplish, do, fulfill, achieve, complete, appear, behave, effect, make, function, administer, operate, produce, carry, fill; antonym (v) neelect
- **ΓΡΑΤΙCS** play; *synonyms* (ν) act, pastime, enact, exercise, perform, joke, execute, fiddle, flirt, (n) frolic, game, sport, bet, diversion, gambol; *antonym* (ν) work.
- граф earl; synonyms (n) thane, viscount, chief.
- **Γραφα** column; synonyms (n) pillar, procession, row, stanchion, file, line, obelisk, post, prop, support, series, monolith, buttress, (adi) tower, minaret.
- **Γραφίκ** graph; *synonyms* (n) figure, diagram, plan, drawing, illustration, map, table, (ν) chart.
- **графічний** graphic; *synonyms* (*adj*) vivid, descriptive, clear, picturesque, realistic, expressive, graphical, lifelike, detailed, (*n*) picture, diagram, image, schematic, (*v*) pictorial.
- **Γραφc**T**BO** county; *synonyms* (n) region, state, area, district, shire, mofussil, constituency, kingdom, count, expanse.
- **грація** grace; *synonyms* (*n*) elegance, favor, clemency, beauty, benediction, blessing, (*v*) bedeck, adorn, deck, garnish, beautify, decorate, embellish, dress, embroider.

- **гребінець** crest; *synonyms* (*n*) apex, crown, peak, summit, top, brow, acme, pinnacle, height, hilltop, zenith, upside, edge, (*v*) cap, climax.
- **гребінь 1.** hip; *synonyms* (*n*) haunch, coxa, loin, pelvis, (*adj*) hep, stylish, chic, in, popular, **2.** crest; *synonyms* (*n*) apex, crown, peak, summit, top, brow, acme, pinnacle, height, hilltop, zenith, upside, edge, (*v*) cap, climax, **3.** back; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, backward, (*n*) rear, (*adj*) assist, (*v*) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) face, (*v*) front, oppose, advance, **4.** crown; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, crest, kingdom, corona, coronal, diadem, tip, vertex, award, garland, (*v*) complete, consummate, culminate, finish, conclude
- **гри** game; *synonyms* (*n*) amusement, fun, entertainment, competition, contest, diversion, match, play, prey, quarry, sport, (*adj*) fearless, (*v*) bet, gamble, wager.
- **гриміти** thunder; *synonyms* (*n*) boom, bang, roll, bellow, clap, (*v*) roar, howl, rumble, fulminate, blast, storm, growl, (*adj*) peal, explode, detonate.
- **грип** flu; *synonyms* (n) influenza, grippe, disease, sickness, bug, infection, virus, (adj) grip.
- **грізний** formidable; *synonyms* (*adj*) arduous, appalling, grim, awful, difficult, dreadful, fearful, forbidding, heavy, dread, onerous, redoubtable, stiff, tough, herculean.
- **rpim** thunder; *synonyms* (*n*) boom, bang, roll, bellow, clap, (*v*) roar, howl, rumble, fulminate, blast, storm, growl, (*adj*) peal, explode, detonate.
- **грінка** toast; *synonyms* (*n*) pledge, brown, plight, (*v*) drink, roast, burn, bake, wassail, cook, crisp, heat, inflame, salute.
- **rpix 1**. sin; synonyms (n) evil, fault, iniquity, crime, blunder, error, guilt, misdeed, offense, wickedness, mistake, (v) offend, blame, err, trespass; antonyms (n) virtue, piety, **2**. guilt; synonyms (n) criminality, sin, remorse, repentance, complicity, responsibility, guiltiness, shame; antonyms (n) innocence, blamelessness.
- **грішити** sin; *synonyms* (*n*) evil, fault, iniquity, crime, blunder, error, guilt, misdeed, offense, wickedness, mistake, (*v*) offend, blame, err, trespass; *antonyms* (*n*) virtue, piety.
- **гробниця** tomb; *synonyms* (*n*) grave, sepulchre, crypt, sepulcher, pit, sepulture, vault, monument, entomb, (*v*) bury, inter.
- гроза storm (буря); synonyms (n) tempest, attack, shower, blizzard, burst, gust, hurricane, (v) rage, rush, assault, fume, hail, charge, bluster, invade.
- **громада** community; *synonyms* (*n*) association, public, agreement, commune, nation, people, brotherhood, likeness, company, district, order, (*adj*) communal, neighborhood, common, group; *antonym* (*adj*) private.
- **громадський 1.** public; *synonyms* (*adj*) common, national, overt, civic, general, communal, mutual, popular, ordinary, (*n*) folk, community, people, populace, audience, (*v*) open; *antonyms* (*adj*) private, confidential, personal, **2.** social; *synonyms* (*adj*) gregarious, companionable, friendly, public, neighborly, affable, communicative, convivial, societal, herding, human, (*n*)

- sociable, mixer, party, society, **3**. common; *synonyms* (*adj*) coarse, cheap, usual, vulgar, accustomed, base, ignoble, mean, mediocre, plebeian, trivial, banal, prosaic, poor, (*n*) habitual; *antonyms* (*adj*) individual, uncommon, rare, unusual, characteristic, one-off, specific, unique, aristocratic, exclusive, extraordinary, infrequent.
- громадянин 1. citizen; synonyms (n) civilian, denizen, inhabitant, national, resident, native, subject, voter; antonym (n) foreigner, 2. national; synonyms (adj) internal, domestic, home, civil, interior, ethnic, federal, public, civic, racial, inland, nationwide, social, (n) citizen, local; antonyms (adj) international, foreign, private.
- **громадянство 1**. citizenship; *synonyms* (*n*) nationality, freedom, **2**. nationality; *synonyms* (*n*) nation, nationalism, patriotism, people, civism, race, folk, nationalness, birth, origin, residency, rights.
- громадянський 1. civil; synonyms (adj) polite, courteous, civic, affable, gracious, mannerly, municipal, obliging, public, civilised, attentive, complaisant, considerate, courtly, domestic; antonyms (adj) rude, abrupt, 2. civic; synonyms (adj) city, urban, national, civil, communal, local; antonym (adj) private.
- **rpoc** gross; synonyms (adj) crass, coarse, big, boorish, common, crude, fat, blunt, disgusting, broad, brutal, bulky, earthy, (v) foul, (n) aggregate; antonyms (adj) attractive, (v) net.
- **rpouii 1.** money; *synonyms* (n) capital, coin, currency, funds, means, lucre, assets, cash, pelf, purse, tin, dollar, pile, (adj) monetary, financial, **2.** cash; *synonyms* (n) ready, bread, change, money, coins, exchange, needful, wealth, wherewithal, finances, income, (v) encash, liquidate, redeem; *antonym* (n) credit, **3.** treasure; *synonyms* (n) gem, prize, fortune, riches, valuable, pearl, treasury, valuables, (v) cherish, esteem, hoard, appreciate, store, garner, (adj) jewel.
- **грошовий** monetary; *synonyms* (*adj*) financial, pecuniary, commercial, economic, numismatical, sumptuary, budgetary, capital, cash, pocket.
- грубий 1. rough; synonyms (adj) coarse, hard, harsh, raw, crude, cruel, grating, gross, hoarse, jagged, approximate, gruff, inclement, (n) boisterous, draft; antonyms (adj) gentle, smooth, polished, precise, refined, silky, soft, sophisticated, even, exact, glossy, pleasant, 2. rude; synonyms (adj) rough, impudent, blunt, bold, brutal, discourteous, impolite, mean, abusive, barbarous, churlish, crass, curt, disrespectful, (n) abrupt; antonyms (adj) polite, respectful, chivalrous, courteous, civil, decent, proper, well-mannered, 3. coarse; synonyms (adi) boorish, yulgar, bawdy, broad, common, earthy, rude, uncivilized, brutish, awkward, base, dirty, indecent, indelicate, (adv) beastly, 4. crude; synonyms (adj) clumsy, immature, primitive, uncouth, barbarian, natural, unprocessed, unrefined, gaudy, tasteless, basic, green, inelegant, loud, loutish, 5. gross; synonyms (adj) big, fat, disgusting, bulky, entire, flagrant, fulsome, glaring, rank, whole, corpulent, downright, (v) foul, (n) aggregate, full; antonyms (adj) attractive, (v) net, 6. brutal; synonyms (adj) barbaric, bestial, savage, truculent, unkind, vicious, boarish, rugged, tough,

- ferocious, fierce, inhuman, oppressive, pitiless, rigorous; *antonyms* (*adj*) kind, merciful, liberal, 7. harsh; *synonyms* (*adj*) sharp, austere, bitter, discordant, grim, acrid, acute, biting, extreme, severe, stern, acerbic, acid, arduous, (*n*) dissonant; *antonyms* (*adj*) harmonious, lenient, melodious, sweet, 8. primitive; *synonyms* (*adj*) primeval, primary, antediluvian, archaic, early, first, original, aboriginal, ancient, antiquated, primal, primordial, radical, elementary, fundamental; *antonym* (*adj*) modern.
- **грубіян** hector; *synonyms* (v) browbeat, bluster, bullyrag, swagger, ballyrag, (n) bully, (adj) domineer, dictate.
- rpy6o roughly; synonyms (adv) coarsely, almost, around, rough, harshly, some, generally, hardly, violently, fiercely, (prep) about, approximately, circa, (adj) nearly; antonyms (adv) gently, softly, smoothly.
- **груди 1.** chest; *synonyms* (*n*) bosom, bust, box, bureau, case, casket, dresser, chamber, crate, thorax, treasury, trunk, **2**. breast; *synonyms* (*n*) boob, chest, knocker, tit, titty, mammilla, heart, mamma, nipple, pap, soul, spirit, teat, booby, (*v*) front.
- **грудка** lump; *synonyms* (*n*) heap, chunk, knot, block, clod, hunk, tumor, bit, bulge, clump, fragment, knob, (*v*) clot, (*adj*) mass, lout.
- **грузовик** lorry; *synonyms* (*n*) dray, camion, cart, truck, waggon, wagon, wain.
- **грунт 1**. dirt; *synonyms* (*n*) soil, dust, filth, grime, crap, ground, mire, scandal, contamination, smudge, dirtiness, foulness, impurity, land, muck, **2**. earth (Земля); *synonyms* (*n*) dirt, world, clay, lair, creation, ball, country, den, globe, hole, nature, orb, sphere, terra, ashes, **3**. soil; *synonyms* (*v*) blot, contaminate, dirty, pollute, blemish, defile, foul, mould, smear, smirch, smutch, begrime, daub, stain, (*adj*) blur; *antonym* (*v*) clean.
- група 1. group; synonyms (n) bunch, brigade, collection, crowd, flock, gang, association, clump, company, gathering, (v) assemblage, class, cluster, rank, sort, 2. gang; synonyms (n) crew, band, circle, faction, mob, pack, team, clique, club, group, horde, knot, ring, set, swarm, 3. cluster; synonyms (n) batch, agglomeration, lot, tuft, party, assembly, clustering, heap, (v) bundle, huddle, collect, gather, assemble, concentrate, congregate; antonym (v) disperse, 4. band; synonyms (n) swathe, collar, lace, strap, strip, stripe, zone, list, area, banding, bond, cohort, hoop, (v) combine, tie, 5. circle (коло); synonyms (n) round, compass, field, range, beat, circuit, scope, league, cycle, (v) turn, whirl, encircle, circulate, enclose, gird, **6**. class; synonyms (n) category, form, grade, position, arrange, brand, department, kind, type, (v) place, categorize, classify, order, assort, branch, 7. batch; synonyms (n) body, battery, charge, mass, suite, consignment, clutch, pile, stack, stock, wad, 8. set; synonyms (v) fix, lay, put, locate, regulate, define, adjust, congeal, posit, (n) bent, repose, (adi) fixed, fast, secure, ready; antonyms (v) soften, liquefy, melt, (n) combing, comb-out, (adj) variable, flexible, liquid, 9. party; synonyms (n) affair, bevy, celebration, do, meeting, entertainment, festivity, function, gala, individual, participant, person, sect, side, troop, 10, team: synonyms (n) squad, organization.

- couple, (v) pair, (adj) file, line, row, string, 11. packet; synonyms (n) package, bale, container, parcel, carton, box, envelope, fortune, mailboat.
- групувати group (група); synonyms (n) bunch, brigade, collection, crowd, flock, gang, association, clump, company, gathering, (v) assemblage, class, cluster, rank, sort.
- **грязь** mud; *synonyms* (*n*) dirt, filth, grime, ooze, sludge, soil, swamp, (*adj*) clay, (*v*) mire, muck.
- ry6a lip; synonyms (n) border, brim, cheek, edge, impertinence, mouth, rim, brink, verge, flange, impudence, backtalk, effrontery, insolence, circumference.
- **губернатор** governor; *synonyms* (*n*) director, chief, manager, regulator, administrator, controller, ruler, superintendent, leader, executive, head, master, official, protector, warden.
- **губити** lose; *synonyms* (*v*) drop, forfeit, mislay, sacrifice, fail, clear, hurt, regress, retrogress, destroy, misplace, recede, suffer, waste, escape; *antonyms* (*v*) gain, find, acquire, earn, get, obtain, recover, secure, win, beat, defeat, keep, succeed.
- **гудзик** button; *synonyms* (*n*) knop, buckle, bud, clasp, fastening, key, push, (*v*) knob, fasten, (*adj*) pin, tie.
- **гудити** blame; *synonyms* (v) accuse, arraign, censure, reprimand, charge, reproach, chide, fault, rebuke, attribute, (n) attack, rap, onus, accusation, allegation; *antonyms* (v) pardon, absolve, praise.
- **ΓΥΖΊΗΗΗ** boom; *synonyms* (n) bang, roar, noise, bar, din, peal, (v) blast, blare, flourish, sound, thrive, thunder, bellow, clang, prosper; *antonyms* (n) depression, (v) collapse, decline.
- **гудіти** boom; *synonyms* (n) bang, roar, noise, bar, din, peal, (v) blast, blare, flourish, sound, thrive, thunder, bellow, clang, prosper; *antonyms* (n) depression, (v) collapse, decline.
- **ГУКАТИ** call; *synonyms* (v) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (n) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; *antonym* (v) dismiss.
- **ryn 1.** boom; *synonyms* (n) bang, roar, noise, bar, din, peal, (v) blast, blare, flourish, sound, thrive, thunder, bellow, clang, prosper; *antonyms* (n) depression, (v) collapse, decline, **2**. clash; *synonyms* (n) battle, brush, crash, discord, encounter, quarrel, (v) jar, fight, impact, brawl, clank, collide, conflict, dispute, hit; *antonyms* (n) agreement, (v) agree.
- **гуляти** walk (ходити); *synonyms* (*v*) ramble, course, hike, move, roam, travel, trek, go, (*n*) step, gait, pace, path, saunter, stroll, excursion.
- **ryma** rubber; *synonyms* (*n*) caoutchouc, condom, eraser, galosh, overshoe, prophylactic, arctic, golosh, gumshoe, (*v*) rubberize.
- **гуманітарний 1**. classical; *synonyms* (*adj*) ideal, correct, model, exemplary, typical, attic, authoritative, chaste, perfect, (*n*) classic, refined, **2**. liberal; *synonyms* (*adj*) generous, bountiful, free, handsome, abundant, benevolent, big, large, kind, ample, bounteous, broad, charitable, giving, tolerant; *antonyms* (*adj*) strict, oppressive, totalitarian, intolerant, (*n*) conservative.

- **гуманність** humanity; *synonyms* (*n*) benevolence, compassion, flesh, kindness, mankind, human, gentleness, humankind, man, mercy, mortality, sympathy, (*adj*) clemency, charity, benignity; *antonym* (*n*) cruelty
- **ГУМКа** rubber; *synonyms* (n) caoutchouc, condom, eraser, galosh, overshoe, prophylactic, arctic, golosh, gumshoe, (v) rubberize.
- **гумовнй** rubber; *synonyms* (*n*) caoutchouc, condom, eraser, galosh, overshoe, prophylactic, arctic, golosh, gumshoe, (*v*) rubberize.
- **rymop** humour; *synonyms* (n) mood, temper, wit, witticism, biliousness, brain, brainpower, card, climate, wittiness, irritability, irritation, mentality, modality, (v) humor
- **rypkit** crash; *synonyms* (*n*) clash, collision, smash, clank, clatter, fall, impact, (*v*) bang, collapse, break, clang, crack, dash, plunge, ram.
- гурман liver; synonyms (n) denizen, resident.
- **rypt** drove; *synonyms* (n) flock, herd, swarm, crowd, horde, covey, mob, multitude, throng, group, host, legion, (adj) bevy, shoal, cloud.
- **ΓΥΡΤΟΚ** circle (ΚΟΛΟ); *synonyms* (n) round, association, band, compass, ring, field, range, beat, circuit, company, gang, scope, (v) turn, whirl, encircle.
- Густий 1. thick; synonyms (adj) dense, compact, stupid, crowded, dull, heavy, opaque, slow, stocky, close, deep, dim, familiar, fat, gross; antonyms (adj) thin, intelligent, bright, sparse, clever, diluted, fine, slight, transparent, 2. dense; synonyms (adj) thick, crass, impenetrable, solid, concentrated, dumb, firm, lush, obtuse, tight, brainless, fatuous, luxuriant, packed, rank; antonyms (adj) insightful, loose, readable, simple.
- **ΓΥCTUHA** density; *synonyms* (n) compactness, consistency, concentration, denseness, stupidity, firmness, solidity, massiveness, stand, crassitude, frequency, weight, absorption, assiduity, assiduousness; *antonym* (n) looseness.
- **ryctota** density; *synonyms* (*n*) compactness, consistency, concentration, denseness, stupidity, firmness, solidity, massiveness, stand, crassitude, frequency, weight, absorption, assiduity, assiduousness; *antonym* (*n*) looseness.
- ГУЧНИЙ 1. loud; synonyms (adj) flashy, garish, gaudy, blatant, boisterous, brassy, forte, high, brazen, jazzy, clamorous, colorful, flash, meretricious, (adv) aloud; antonyms (adj) soft, gentle, quiet, tasteful, low, subdued, subtle, 2. vocal; synonyms (adj) oral, spoken, unwritten, outspoken, sonant, sonorous, vowel, eloquent, instrumental, sung, 3. big (Великий); synonyms (adj) ample, major, heavy, important, significant, thick, sturdy, generous, adult, bad, burly, considerable, great, hefty, (adv) large; antonyms (adj) little, puny, (adv) small, (syn) tiny.
- **гущавина** thick; *synonyms* (*adj*) dense, compact, stupid, crowded, dull, heavy, opaque, slow, stocky, close, deep, dim, familiar, fat, gross; *antonyms* (*adj*) thin, intelligent, bright, sparse, clever, diluted, fine, slight, transparent.

## T

- IPYHT 1. soil; synonyms (n) ground, dirt, grime, land, dust, (v) smudge, blot, contaminate, dirty, pollute, mire, blemish, defile, foul, mould; antonym (v) clean, 2. ground; synonyms (n) base, cause, floor, reason, field, soil, account, country, basis, footing, foundation, (v) bottom, found, establish, fix; antonym (n) ceiling.
- **ГУДЗИК** button; *synonyms* (n) knop, buckle, bud, clasp, fastening, key, push, (v) knob, fasten, (*adī*) pin, tie.
- **Í'YJIS** boss; *synonyms* (n) chief, governor, head, overseer, superior, ruler, administrator, captain, director, executive, foreman, leader, (v) administer, govern, direct.

## Д

- давати 1. give; synonyms (v) allow, bestow, extend, accord, commit, donate, contribute, convey, deliver, dispense, endow, grant, present, yield, administer; antonyms (v) withdraw, take, withhold, 2. yield; synonyms (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, concede, submit, cede, relinquish, bow, accede, afford, bear, consent; antonyms (v) resist, persevere, 3. afford; synonyms (v) lend, offer, provide, furnish, impart, supply, sustain, bring, cost, fetch, spare, open, show, 4. allow; synonyms (v) acknowledge, agree, permit, acquiesce, accept, authorize, enable, endure, own, recognize, stand, suffer, abide, (adj) admit, (n) let; antonyms (v) forbid, prohibit, deny, reject, 5. produce; synonyms (v) effect, cause, make, procreate, breed, construct, create, form, frame, generate, prepare, beget, develop, (n) gain, crop, **6**. provide; synonyms (v) accommodate, cater, equip, fit, outfit, nourish, nurture, arm, ensure, ply, purvey, render, serve, stock, pander.
- ДАВИТИ press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- давній 1. ancient; synonyms (adj) aged, old, antiquated, obsolete, former, past, antique, archaic, bygone, hoary, primitive, olden, antediluvian, dated, (n) elder; antonym (adj) modern, 2. old (старий); synonyms (adj) ancient, elderly, experienced, outdated, veteran, decrepit, mature, stale, disused, hackneyed, late, traditional, decayed, inveterate, auld; antonyms (adj) new, young, fresh, latest, novel, original, youthful.
- давно long; synonyms (adj) extended, lengthy, dragging, far, (v) aspire, desire, hanker, languish, yearn, ache, hunger, wish, crave, (n) extensive, large; antonyms (adj) short brief
- далекий 1. distant; synonyms (adj) cold, aloof, remote, chill, cool, detached, far, reserved, long, faraway, icy, indifferent, removed, (adv) apart, (n) chilly; antonyms (adj) close, adjacent, friendly, near, nearby, neighboring,

- warm, pending, alert, intimate, involved, **2**. far; *synonyms* (*adv*) wide, off, widely, well, astray, (*adj*) distant, much, outlying, (*v*) considerably, abundantly; *antonym* (*adv*) briefly.
- далеко 1. far; synonyms (adv) wide, off, widely, well, astray, (adj) distant, aloof, faraway, remote, much, outlying, (v) considerably, abundantly; antonyms (adv) close, briefly, (adj) near, 2. away; synonyms (adv) apart, absent, aside, by, forth, way, hence, elsewhere, (adj) abroad, gone, missing, outside, (int) out.
- далі 1. further; synonyms (adv) farther, again, also, (adj) extra, additional, more, another, (v) advance, encourage, forward, foster, accelerate, elevate, help, (n) promote; antonym (adj) less, 2. forward; synonyms (adv) onward, fore, ahead, along, (adj) bold, audacious, advanced, early, brazen, confident, (n) further, (v) expedite, cultivate, consign, (phr) dispatch; antonyms (adv) backward, (adj) shy, posterior.
- ДАЛЬНІЙ 1. distant; synonyms (adj) cold, aloof, remote, chill, cool, detached, far, reserved, long, faraway, icy, indifferent, removed, (adv) apart, (n) chilly; antonyms (adj) close, adjacent, friendly, near, nearby, neighboring, warm, pending, alert, intimate, involved, 2. remote; synonyms (adj) distant, inaccessible, outside, faint, alien, foreign, isolated, lonely, outlying, secluded, unapproachable, away, extraneous, slender, slight; antonym (adj) accessible.
- дама 1. lady; *synonyms* (*n*) dame, gentlewoman, female, ma'am, matron, wife, woman, noble, (*v*) squaw; *antonym* (*n*) man, 2. dame; *synonyms* (*n*) lady, girl, skirt, wench, bird, chick.
- даний 1. given; synonyms (adj) apt, disposed, prone, liable, granted, inclined, set, (n) assumption, particular, presumption, fact, 2. present; synonyms (adj) grant, confer, (n) gift, donation, (v) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (adv) absent.
- данина tribute; *synonyms* (n) commendation, praise, tax, contribution, honor, testimonial, duty, homage, eulogy, respect, compliment, appreciation, approval, (v) subsidy, allowance; *antonym* (n) criticism.
- дані data; *synonyms* (n) information, facts, details, evidence, fact, figures, file, material, postulate, proof.
- дантист dentist; synonym (n) toothdrawer.
- дар 1. donation; synonyms (n) contribution, gift, benefaction, present, award, endowment, grant, charity, dole, gratuity, presentation, (v) boon, bounty, bestowal, bestowment, 2. gift; synonyms (n) donation, faculty, flair, capacity, dower, aptitude, bent, dowry, (v) bestow, donate, endow, allowance, (adj) ability, talent, cleverness; antonym (n) inability, 3. grant; synonyms (n) concession, permit, subsidy, (v) give, allow, admit, afford, concede, confer, acknowledge, accord, cede, confess, (adj) deliver, consent; antonyms (v) deny, reject.
- даремний useless; synonyms (adj) futile, pointless, unnecessary, needless, abortive, fruitless, hopeless, worthless, idle, barren, superfluous, bootless, incompetent, ineffective, ineffectual; antonyms (adj)

- useful, helpful, competent, effective, convenient, necessary, valuable.
- ДАРУВАННЯ gift; synonyms (n) donation, faculty, award, flair, capacity, dower, charity, aptitude, bent, (v) present, boon, bestow, (adj) endowment, ability, talent; antonym (n) inability.
- дарувати 1. give; synonyms (v) allow, bestow, extend, accord, commit, donate, contribute, convey, deliver, dispense, endow, grant, present, yield, administer; antonyms (v) withdraw, take, withhold, 2. grant; synonyms (n) concession, donation, permit, allowance, (v) give, award, admit, afford, concede, confer, gift, acknowledge, boon, endowment, cede; antonyms (v) deny, reject, 3. present; synonyms (adj) current, (n) offering, presentation, (v) display, introduce, prefer, offer, perform, gratuity, exhibit, serve, indicate, largess, advance, bounty; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (adv) absent.
- ¿AAPYHOK 1. grant; synonyms (n) concession, donation, permit, (v) give, allow, award, bestow, admit, afford, concede, confer, gift, acknowledge, accord, boon; antonyms (v) deny, reject, 2. gift; synonyms (n) faculty, flair, capacity, dower, charity, aptitude, bent, contribution, dowry, (v) present, donate, (adj) endowment, ability, talent, bounty; antonym (n) inability, 3. donation; synonyms (n) benefaction, grant, dole, gratuity, presentation, bequest, (v) bestowal, bestowment, 4. present; synonyms (adj) current, (n) offering, (v) display, introduce, prefer, deliver, offer, perform, exhibit, serve, indicate, cede, largess, advance, hand; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (adv) absent.
- Aata date; synonyms (n) age, appointment, assignation, engagement, epoch, meeting, period, era, time, year, boyfriend, (v) escort, determine, register, accompany.
- ДАТИ give; synonyms (v) allow, bestow, extend, accord, commit, donate, contribute, convey, deliver, dispense, endow, grant, present, yield, administer; antonyms (v) withdraw, take, withhold.
- ДАТУВАТИ date; *synonyms* (n) age, appointment, assignation, engagement, epoch, meeting, period, era, time, year, boyfriend, (v) escort, determine, register, accompany.
- дах roof; *synonyms* (*n*) crown, ceiling, housing, dome, shelter, back, house, (*v*) top, cover.
- дбайливий careful; synonyms (adj) accurate, attentive, thrifty, alert, deliberate, economical, frugal, mindful, prudent, thoughtful, assiduous, aware, cagey, cautious, (v) anxious; antonyms (adj) careless, reckless, slapdash, neglectful.
- ДБАЙ.ЛИВО carefully; synonyms (adv) cautiously, closely, thoroughly, deliberately, assiduously, attentively, charily, guardedly, meticulously, painstakingly, prudently, scrupulously, warily, watchfully, exactly; antonyms (adv) carelessly, hastily, inaccurately, rashly, recklessly, incautiously, indifferently, unhelpfully.
- **ДБАННЯ** attention; *synonyms* (n) mind, aid, alertness, care, consideration, heed, notice, attentiveness, caution, concentration, deliberation, diligence, ear, nursing, observation; *antonyms* (n) inattention, neglect.

- **дбати 1.** care; *synonyms* (n) attention, bother, caution, concern, aid, apprehension, custody, keep, maintenance, worry, attendance, affection, (v) anxiety, charge, administer; *antonyms* (n) carelessness, recklessness, rashness, thoughtlessness, (v) neglect, disregard, **2**. attend; *synonyms* (v) accompany, assist, escort, serve, advert, conduct, follow, hear, help, listen, look, minister, (n) tend, doctor, nurse.
- два two; *synonyms* (n) deuce, pair, binary, demon, devil, duality, (adj) tway.
- двадцятий twentieth; *synonym* (*adj*) vigesimal. двадцять twenty; *synonym* (*adj*) twice.
- дванадцятий twelfth; synonyms (adj) duodecimal, dozenth.
- дванадцять twelve; synonym (n) dozen.
- двері door; *synonyms* (*n*) gate, threshold, access, doorway, entrance, entry, mouth, opening, entryway, exit, hatch, inlet, porch, portal, wicket.
- двигун 1. engine; *synonyms* (*n*) locomotive, machine, contrivance, implement, instrument, mechanism, organ, tool, utensil, 2. motor; *synonyms* (*n*) engine, automobile, car, conductor, (*adj*) motive, (*v*) drive, ride, travel.
- ДВІЙНИК 1. double; synonyms (adj) duplicate, dual, duple, twofold, (v) fold, reduplicate, bend, geminate, plait, (n) twin, image, match, mate, substitute, alternate; antonym (n) single, 2. counterpart; synonyms (n) companion, complement, copy, double, equivalent, parallel, pendant, facsimile, fellow, likeness, opposite, pair, resemblance, equal.
- двір 1. yard; synonyms (n) court, courtyard, garden, backyard, grounds, close, quadrangle, enclosure, beehive, bindery, chiliad, g, grand, m, nailery, 2. court; synonyms (n) forum, bar, field, tribunal, judicatory, passage, judge, courtroom, hall, judicature, (v) woo, attract, invite, romance, flatter; antonyms (v) avoid, shun, 3. courtyard; synonyms (n) yard, area, square, forecourt.
- двічі twice; *synonyms* (adv) double, doubly, bis, (adj)
- двозначний ambiguous; synonyms (adj) equivocal, indistinct, indeterminate, uncertain, evasive, slippery, amphibolous, confused, cryptic, doubtful, dubious, enigmatic, imprecise, indefinite, (v) vague; antonyms (adi) clear. definite. unambiguous, unequivocal.
- ДВОЗНАЧНІСТЬ ambiguity; synonyms (n) equivocation, doubt, uncertainty, unclearness, equivocalness, haziness, hesitation, obscurity, vagueness, loophole; antonyms (n) clearness, precision, unambiguity.
- ДВОЇСТИЙ dual; synonyms (adj) double, duplex, duple, twin, twofold, doubled, bivalent, combined, threefold, treble, bifold, binal, common, cooperative, double-dip; antonyms (adj) individual, single.
- двокрапка colon; *synonyms* (n) bowel, (v) period, semicolon, comma.
- двоокис dioxide; synonyms (n) binoxide, suboxide. Дворецький butler; synonyms (n) pantryman, waiter, flunky.

- ДВОРЯНСТВО nobility; synonyms (n) aristocracy, greatness, dignity, magnanimousness, noblesse, gentry, magnificence, goodness, rank, birth, elite, gallantry, (adj) grandeur, generosity, magnanimity; antonym (n) pettiness.
- двосторонній bilateral; synonyms (adj) mutual, joint, quadrilateral, trilateral, isobilateral, multiparty, (v) bicephalous, bicipital, bidental, bifold, biform, bilabiate, bivalve, bivalvular; antonym (adj) unilateral.
- **дe** where; *synonyms* (*adv*) there, here, wherever, whither, anywhere, wherein, anyplace, whereas, somewhere, (*conj*) but, while, (*pron*) everywhere, (*n*) point, spot, situation.
- **дебати** debate; *synonyms* (n) argue, argumentation, contention, argument, controversy, disputation, (v) contest, dispute, contend, altercation, controvert, discuss, canvass, altercate, consider; *antonym* (v) agree.
- ДЕБАТУВАТИ debate; synonyms (n) argue, argumentation, contention, argument, controversy, disputation, (v) contest, dispute, contend, altercation, controvert, discuss, canvass, altercate, consider; antonym (v) agree.
- ДЕБІТ yield; *synonyms* (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; *antonyms* (v) resist, persevere.
- ДЕБІТОР debtor; synonyms (n) bankrupt, debitor, levanter, stag, welsher, delinquent, insolvent, nonpayer, cheat.
- **ДЕБЮТ** debut; *synonyms* (*n*) introduction, initiation, adventure, aim, embarcation, incoming, opening, premiere, appearance, baptism, entrance, entree, entry, inauguration, launching.
- ДЕБЮТУВАТИ debut; synonyms (n) introduction, initiation, adventure, aim, embarcation, incoming, opening, premiere, appearance, baptism, entrance, entree, entry, inauguration, launching.
- **девальвація** devaluation; *synonyms* (n) depression, deterioration.
- дев'яносто ninety; synonym (n) xc.
- дев'ятий ninth; synonym (adj) ninefold.
- ДЕВ'ЯТКА nine; *synonyms* (n) niner, club, ennead, ace, cabaret, clubhouse, gild, golfclub, guild, jack, king, knave, lodge, nightclub, nightspot.
- дев'ять nine; synonyms (n) niner, club, ennead, ace, cabaret, clubhouse, gild, golfclub, guild, jack, king, knave, lodge, nightclub, nightspot.
- **дегустувати** taste; *synonyms* (n) bit, flavor, liking, morsel, penchant, appetite, drink, drop, fondness, gusto, (v) relish, savor, sample, smack, discernment; *antonyms* (n) dislike, tastelessness.
- дезертирувати 1. desert (пустеля); synonyms (n) wilderness, (v) abandon, escape, defect, ditch, forsake, leave, relinquish, abscond, (adj) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, worth; antonyms (n) bog, (v) stay, 2. defect; synonyms (n) fault, blemish, blot, flaw, shortcoming, deficiency, failing, imperfection, scar, weakness, dearth, deformity, foible, (v) desert, (adj) infirmity.

- **ДЕКАН** dean; *synonyms* (*n*) doyen, elder, principal, senior, clergyman, father, leader, administrator, archbishop, bishop, diocesan, eminence, metropolitan, minister, pilot.
- декілька several; *synonyms* (*adj*) many, different, individual, various, numerous, particular, separate, special, manifold, respective, (*v*) diverse, divers, sundry, (*n*) some, (*det*) any, *antonym* (*adj*) few.
- **ДЕКІЛЬКОХ** several; synonyms (adj) many, different, individual, various, numerous, particular, separate, special, manifold, respective, (ν) diverse, divers, sundry, (n) some, (det) any; antonym (adj) few.
- декларація declaration; synonyms (n) announcement, affirmation, assertion, allegation, avowal, claim, expression, pronouncement, statement, enunciation, acknowledgment, admission, decree, deposition, dictum; antonym (n) denial.
- **ДЕКОРАЦІЇ** scenery; *synonyms* (*n*) scene, prospect, landscape, panorama, outlook, nature, perspective, picture, set, vista, lookout, view.
- **ДΕΚΟΡΑЦΙЯ** scene; *synonyms* (n) aspect, view, background, display, environment, outlook, panorama, picture, spectacle, lookout, perspective, act, appearance, look, (ν) prospect.
- **ДЕКОТРИЙ** some; *synonyms* (*adv*) nearly, rather, somewhat, about, approximately, around, roughly, round, almost, near, (*adj*) few, certain, several, (*det*) any, (*n*) one.
- **Декрет** decree; *synonyms* (n) command, act, edict, decision, dictate, finding, judgment, verdict, (ν) order, award, decide, enact, ordain, rule, will.
- **ДЕЛЕГАТ 1.** deputy; *synonyms* (n) agent, surrogate, alternate, delegate, substitute, ambassador, assistant, replacement, representative, vicar, spokesman, envoy, help, (adj) proxy, acting, **2.** spokesman; *synonyms* (n) orator, mouthpiece, speaker, interpreter, exponent, proponent, advocate, chairman, foreteller, lecturer, mantis, narrator, predicter, presenter, prophet.
- делегація 1. delegation; *synonyms* (n) commission, delegacy, deputation, delegating, devolution, mission, organization, group, 2. mission; *synonyms* (n) delegation, job, assignment, charge, duty, goal, legation, chore, errand, task, function, business, calling, expedition, purpose.
- **ДЕЛЕГУВАННЯ** delegation; *synonyms* (n) commission, delegacy, deputation, delegating, devolution, mission, organization, group.
- делікатний delicate; synonyms (adj) fine, accurate, breakable, dainty, fragile, refined, tender, beautiful, brittle, difficult, frail, nice, sensitive, soft, slim; antonyms (adj) strong, inelegant, robust, heavy, sturdy, tough.
- **дельфін** dolphin; *synonyms* (*n*) dolphinfish, mahimahi, trident, pale.
- **демократ** democrat; *synonyms* (*n*) commoner, plebeian, proletaire, proletary, republican, roturier, democratist, populist.
- **ДЕМОКРАТИЗМ** democracy; *synonyms* (n) commonwealth, commonalty, nation, capitalism, country, democraty, freedom, oligarchy, republic, state, egalitarianism, emancipation, equalitarianism, equality,

- justice; *antonyms* (*n*) despotism, dictatorship, totalitarianism, autocracy, tyranny.
- демократичний democratic; synonyms (adj) egalitarian, classless, equal, broadminded, constitutional, democratical, free, humane, informal, permissive, popular, tolerant, autonomous, bourgeois, communal; antonyms (adj) authoritarian, despotic, tyrannical.
- демократія democracy; synonyms (n) commonwealth, commonalty, nation, capitalism, country, democraty, freedom, oligarchy, republic, state, egalitarianism, emancipation, equalitarianism, equality, justice; antonyms (n) despotism, dictatorship, totalitarianism, autocracy, tyranny.
- **демонстрація** demonstration; *synonyms* (*n*) parade, proof, argument, display, manifestation, presentation, demo, evidence, exhibition, illustration, show, testimony, showing, indication, (*v*) exposition.
- **демонструвати** demonstrate; *synonyms* (v) prove, authenticate, attest, display, establish, exhibit, present, show, argue, certify, confirm, evidence, exemplify, explain, indicate; *antonyms* (v) disprove, conceal.
- **де-небудь** 1. anywhere; *synonyms* (*adv*) anyplace, everyplace, 2. somewhere; *synonyms* (*adv*) anywhere, someplace, wherever, where, elsewhere, nearly, ultimately, scattered.
- **ДЕННИЙ** daily; *synonyms* (*adj*) journal, diurnal, everyday, regular, (*n*) newspaper, gazette, paper, tabloid.
- день day; *synonyms* (*n*) light, daylight, generation, age, daytime, epoch, time, crisis; *antonyms* (*n*) nighttime, night.
- ДЕПО 1. depot; *synonyms* (*n*) store, depository, arsenal, station, storehouse, warehouse, dump, entrepot, stockroom, stop, storage, storeroom, terminal, terminus, 2. barn; *synonyms* (*n*) shed, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (*adj*) foul, unclean.
- **депозит** deposit; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, residue, guarantee, heap, hoard, lees, (*v*) bank, commit, store, fix, lay, repose, cast, file, leave; *antonym* (*v*) withdraw.
- депонувати deposit; *synonyms* (n) charge, residue, guarantee, heap, hoard, lees, (v) bank, commit, store, fix, lay, repose, cast, file, leave; *antonym* (v) withdraw.
- **депресія** depression; *synonyms* (n) basin, cavity, dejection, decline, dent, dip, hole, hollow, impression, slump, trench, trough, drop, recess, collapse; *antonyms* (n) cheerfulness, happiness, boom, elation, encouragement, inflation, outcrop.
- депутат deputy; synonyms (n) agent, surrogate, alternate, delegate, substitute, ambassador, assistant, replacement, representative, vicar, spokesman, envoy, help, (adj) proxy, acting.
- **ДЕПУТАЦІЯ** delegation; *synonyms* (n) commission, delegacy, deputation, delegating, devolution, mission, organization, group.
- **деревина** wood; *synonyms* (*n*) forest, timber, woods, tree, lumber, coppice, jungle.
- **дерево 1.** tree; *synonyms* (n) gallows, gibbet, stem, house, tribe, hierarchy, landmark, lentisk, ranking, trunk, filler, (ν) corner, collar, **2**. wood; *synonyms* (n) forest, timber, woods, tree, lumber, coppice, jungle.

- дерев'яний 1. wooden; *synonyms* (*adj*) stiff, wood, stilted, expressionless, inept, dead, impassive, **2**. wood; *synonyms* (*n*) forest, timber, woods, tree, lumber, coppice, jungle.
- **ДЕРЕН** grass; *synonyms* (n) cannabis, forage, marijuana, pasture, dope, feed, ganja, herb, herbage, informer, (ν) betray, denounce, (adj) pot, green, hemp.
- ДЕРЕНЧАТИ jar; synonyms (n) jangle, blow, crock, container, jog, shake, amphora, bottle, crash, (v) jolt, clash, creak, bump, collide, jounce.
- держава 1. state; synonyms (n) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, place, (v) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, (adj) national; antonyms (v) deny, (adj) private, 2. commonwealth; synonyms (n) commonweal, state, province, society, community, land, republic, democracy, 3. nation (нація); synonyms (n) commonwealth, people, nationality, public, tribe, clan, folk, race, territory, breed, federation, 4. power; synonyms (n) force, ability, potency, authority, control, energy, agency, domination, intensity, strength, (v) influence, might, dominion, faculty, capacity; antonyms (n) powerlessness, helplessness, weakness.
- ДЕРЖАВНИЙ 1. political; synonyms (adj) politic, national, civil, cunning, following, supporting, ambassadorial, artful, biased, embassy, opinionated, partisan, prudent, sagacious, unscrupulous, 2. national; synonyms (adj) internal, domestic, home, interior, ethnic, federal, native, public, civic, racial, inland, (n) citizen, local, subject, inhabitant; antonyms (adj) international, foreign, private, (n) foreigner, 3. state (держава); synonyms (n) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, place, (v) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, articulate; antonym (v) deny.
- **Держак 1.** shaft; *synonyms* (*n*) arrow, handle, axis, beam, pit, dart, pillar, axle, bar, lance, mine, post, ray, well, (*ν*) cheat, **2.** handle; *synonyms* (*ν*) administer, conduct, feel, wield, control, deal, direct, finger, manage, manipulate, touch, treat, (*n*) grip, clutch, grasp, **3.** holder; *synonyms* (*n*) bearer, case, possessor, stand, container, proprietor, rack, tenant, carrier, bracket, occupant, owner, support, vessel.
- **ДЕРЖАТЕЛЬ** holder; *synonyms* (n) bearer, case, possessor, stand, container, proprietor, rack, tenant, handle, carrier, bracket, occupant, owner, support, vessel.
- **ДЕРЖАТИ** hold; *synonyms* (v) keep, detain, endure, adhere, bear, comprise, contain, entertain, have, arrest, carry, (n) grasp, grip, clasp, clutch; *antonym* (v) release.
- **дертися** climb; *synonyms* (*v*) ascend, arise, clamber, escalate, increase, scale, scramble, (*n*) rise, mount, ascent, acclivity, advance, ascending, jump, ascension; *antonyms* (*v*) descend, drop.
- **ДЕСПОТИЧНИЙ** arbitrary; *synonyms* (*adj*) absolute, capricious, dictatorial, optional, erratic, random, peremptory, masterful, haphazard, autocratic, discretionary, dogmatic, domineering, freakish, imperious.
- десь somewhere; synonyms (adv) anywhere, someplace, anyplace, wherever, where, elsewhere, nearly, ultimately, everyplace, scattered.

- десятий tenth; synonyms (n) tithe, disme, (adj) decimal, decuple, denary, tenfold.
- десятиріччя decade; synonyms (n) ten, decennary, decennium, tenner, day, generation, lifetime, quinquennium, decad, hour, life, minute, month, quarter, second.
- **ДЕСЯТНИК** boss; *synonyms* (*n*) chief, governor, head, overseer, superior, ruler, administrator, captain, director, executive, foreman, leader, (*v*) administer, govern, direct.
- **ДЕСЯТОК** decade; *synonyms* (n) ten, decennary, decennium, tenner, day, generation, lifetime, quinquennium, decad, hour, life, minute, month, quarter, second.
- **Десять** ten; *synonyms* (n) tenner, decade, ace, break, breath, decennary, decennium, ecstasy, female, (adj) perfect, comely, desirable, faultless, glamorous, goodlooking.
- деталь 1. detail; synonyms (n) report, point, feature, item, circumstance, (v) describe, enumerate, relate, appoint, assign, cast, itemize, recite, specify, define; antonym (n) generalization, 2. circumstance; synonyms (n) affair, state, accident, chance, event, incident, matter, occasion, opportunity, adventure, casualty, fact, occurrence, juncture, crisis, 3. specification; synonyms (n) designation, provision, stipulation, particular, condition, detail, description, spec, indication, particularization, case, clause, estimate, prerequisite, proviso.
- ДЕТАЛЬНИЙ detailed; synonyms (adj) circumstantial, close, careful, accurate, delicate, elaborate, meticulous, minute, thorough, scrupulous, complete, comprehensive, elaborated, exact, exhaustive.
- **Детектив** detective; *synonyms* (*n*) investigator, scout, tec, officer, spy, policeman, snoop, runner, watchman, analyst, beagle, bull, (*v*) informer, delator, eavesdropper.
- ДЕТЕКТИВНИЙ detective; synonyms (n) investigator, scout, tec, officer, spy, policeman, snoop, runner, watchman, analyst, beagle, bull, (v) informer, delator, eavesdropper.
- детектор detector; *synonyms* (n) demodulator, sensor, detecter, selector.
- **дефект 1.** defect; *synonyms* (n) fault, blemish, blot, flaw, shortcoming, deficiency, failing, imperfection, scar, weakness, dearth, deformity, foible, (v) desert, (adj) infirmity, **2.** fault; *synonyms* (n) defect, error, blame, crime, delinquency, blunder, break, demerit, default, failure, fracture, lapse, misdeed, mistake, (v) culpability; *antonyms* (n) merit, strength.
- ДЕФЕКТНИЙ defective; synonyms (adj) deficient, bad, faulty, imperfect, broken, incomplete, lacking, unsound, vicious, inaccurate, rotten, erroneous, flawed, inadequate, incorrect; antonym (adj) perfect.
- **ДЕФІНІЦІЯ** definition; *synonyms* (*n*) description, account, explanation, interpretation, limitation, definiteness; *antonym* (*n*) bagginess.
- дефіцит 1. deficit; synonyms (n) deficiency, failure, shortage, dearth, lack, arrears, absence, scarcity, shortfall, (adj) defect; antonym (n) excess, 2. deficiency; synonyms (n) want, deficit, failing, inadequacy, shortcoming, famine, fault, insufficiency, scarceness, shortness, weakness, disadvantage, drought, (adj) blemish, imperfection; antonym (n) sufficiency, 3.

- shortage (недостача); *synonyms* (n) paucity, need, poverty, scantiness, deprivation; *antonyms* (n) abundance, overabundance, surplus, affluence, glut.
- **ДΕΦΟΡΜΑЦΙЯ 1.** alteration; *synonyms* (n) adaptation, adjustment, change, revision, shift, changeover, amendment, conversion, deviation, metamorphosis, modification, transformation, turn, variation, movement, **2.** strain; *synonyms* (n) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (ν) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; *antonym* (ν) relax
- дехто 1. some; *synonyms* (*adv*) nearly, rather, somewhat, about, approximately, around, roughly, round, almost, near, (*adj*) few, certain, several, (*det*) any, (*n*) one, 2. someone; *synonyms* (*pron*) somebody, anybody, anyone, (*n*) individual, person, human, self, man, party, soul, homo, mortal, 3. one (ОДИН); *synonyms* (*n*) single, ace, unit, unity, (*adj*) lone, only, unique, some, singular, particular, sole, united, ane, (*adv*) once, 4. somebody; *synonyms* (*pron*) someone, (*n*) personage, creature, body, notable, (*adj*) celebrity, hero, lion, notability; *antonym* (*pron*) nobody.
- дешевий cheap; synonyms (adj) inexpensive, low, stingy, tacky, base, brassy, bum, cheesy, economical, flashy, mean, niggardly, reasonable, shabby, sleazy; antonyms (adj) expensive, costly, generous, tasteful, first-rate, luxurious.
- ДЕШЕВО commonly; synonyms (adv) frequently, generally, normally, ordinarily, usually, customarily, currently, habitually, often, regularly, cheaply; antonyms (adv) rarely, unusually, uncommonly.
- дещо 1. something; synonyms (pron) anything, (n) what, object, somewhat, thing, article, entity, (adv) rather, 2. some; synonyms (adv) nearly, about, approximately, around, roughly, round, almost, near, (adj) few, certain, several, sundry, extraordinary, (det) any, (n) one.
- деякий 1. certain; synonyms (adj) actual, definite, sure, absolute, assured, dependable, indisputable, reliable, categorical, decisive, fixed, inevitable, infallible, particular, (v) bound; antonyms (adj) uncertain, doubtful, unsure, questionable, 2. some; synonyms (adv) nearly, rather, somewhat, about, approximately, around, roughly, round, almost, near, (adj) few, certain, several, (det) any, (n) one.
- Деякі some; *synonyms* (*adv*) nearly, rather, somewhat, about, approximately, around, roughly, round, almost, near, (*adj*) few, certain, several, (*det*) any, (*n*) one.
- джаз jazz; *synonyms* (*n*) talk, wind, bunk, nonsense, absurdity, (*v*) bop, bang, fuck, hump, screw, cheat, lie, do, stimulate, acknowledge.
- ДЖАЗОВИЙ jazz; synonyms (n) talk, wind, bunk, nonsense, absurdity, (v) bop, bang, fuck, hump, screw, cheat, lie, do, stimulate, acknowledge.
- джем jam; *synonyms* (*n*) crush, crowd, fix, squeeze, congestion, conserve, dilemma, hole, (*v*) block, cram, bar, fill, force, gorge, hinder; *antonym* (*v*) free.
- джентельмен gentleman; synonyms (n) man, male, patrician, sir, laureate, squireen, noble, gentle, fellow, guy, valet, homo, human, humanity, (adj) gentilhomme; antonym (n) woman.

- джентрі gentry; synonyms (n) aristocracy, gentility, nobility, elite, society, (adj) birth, civility, complaisance, condition. courtesy.
- джерело 1. origin; synonyms (n) cause, lineage, base, beginning, birth, descent, ancestry, commencement, derivation, extraction, foundation, fountain, inception, root, source; *antonym* (n) end, **2**. source; *synonyms* (n) origin, reason, head, parent, basis, germ, headspring, original, origination, reference, seed, spring, reservoir, fount, generator, 3. beginning; synonyms (n) begin, opening, start, dawn, debut, emergence, genesis, incipiency, initiation, introduction, kickoff, onset, preface, (adj) first, incipient; antonyms (n) finish, finale, conclusion, demise, ending, 4. well (добре); synonyms (adv) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, good, correctly, (adj) healthy, fit, shaft, sound, robust, (n) pit, hollow, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous, 5. channel; synonyms (n) canal, conduit, groove, drain, duct, line, passage, trough, waterway, aqueduct, link, agent, (v) carry, conduct, convey, 6. principle; synonyms (n) fundamental, method, rule, doctrine, ground, dogma, element, essence, law, precept, tenet, integrity, canon, formula, maxim, 7. parent; synonyms (n) mother, forefather, prototype, precursor, (v) father, foster, rear, nurture, generate, advance, advert, arouse, boot, cite, conjure; antonym (n) child, 8. spring (BecHa); synonyms (n) jump, leap, bound, skip, dance, rise, jet, (v) hop, caper, bounce, dive, originate, recoil, proceed, (adj) elastic.
- ДЖУНГЛІ jungle; synonyms (n) bush, forest, maze, tangle, snarl, wood, woodland, labyrinth, (adj) wilderness
- ДЗВЕНІТИ ring (кільце); synonyms (n) encircle, band, gang, jingle, loop, rim, circuit, annulus, (v) circle, call, peal, echo, resound, reverberate, gird.
- дзвін bell; synonyms (n) chime, gong, ring, buzz, doorbell, alarm, siren, clang, call, buzzer, campana, cymbal, sign, sound, supplement.
- ДЗВІНКИЙ vocal; *synonyms* (*adj*) oral, spoken, unwritten, outspoken, sonant, sonorous, vowel, eloquent, instrumental, sung; *antonym* (*adj*) quiet.
- ДЗВОНИК bell; synonyms (n) chime, gong, ring, buzz, doorbell, alarm, siren, clang, call, buzzer, campana, cymbal, sign, sound, supplement.
- дзвонити ring (кільце); synonyms (n) encircle, band, gang, jingle, loop, rim, circuit, annulus, (v) circle, call, peal, echo, resound, reverberate, gird.
- дзеркало mirror; synonyms (n) echo, model, exemplar, (v) glass, imitate, copy, reflect, represent, reproduce, lens, mimic, (adi) pattern, cynosure.
- ДЗИЖЧАННЯ boom; synonyms (n) bang, roar, noise, bar, din, peal, (v) blast, blare, flourish, sound, thrive, thunder, bellow, clang, prosper; antonyms (n) depression, (v) collapse, decline.
- ДЗИЖЧАТИ boom; *synonyms* (n) bang, roar, noise, bar, din, peal, (v) blast, blare, flourish, sound, thrive, thunder, bellow, clang, prosper; *antonyms* (n) depression, (v) collapse, decline.
- дивак eccentric; *synonyms* (*adj*) bizarre, odd, wacky, abnormal, anomalous, crazy, erratic, irregular,

- outlandish, peculiar, strange, droll, comical, (n) character, case; *antonyms* (adj) normal, ordinary, (n) conformist
- диван sofa; *synonyms* (*n*) couch, lounge, bench, chair, form, stall, stool, bed, futon.
- **ДИВИНА** curiosity; *synonyms* (n) wonder, curio, curiousness, interest, oddity, rarity, nosiness, prying, prodigy, marvel, novelty, peculiarity.
- **ДИВИТИСЯ 1.** look; *synonyms* (*v*) seem, appear, expect, figure, attend, (*n*) face, gaze, appearance, aspect, air, countenance, expression, glance, guise, view, **2**. Watch; *synonyms* (*v*) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, check, (*n*) guard, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (*ad*) vigilance.
- **ДИВІДЕНД** dividend; *synonyms* (*n*) allotment, bonus, gain, division, portion, profit, balance, revenue, (*v*) share.
- **ДИВІЗІОН** battery; *synonyms* (*n*) troop, army, barrage, company, collection, mugging, onslaught, sequence, squad, violence, group, regiment, squadron, ark, battalia.
- ДИВІЗІЯ division; synonyms (n) department, disagreement, allotment, branch, break, class, compartment, part, section, split, cleavage, classification, category, (adj) constituent, (v) distribution; antonyms (n) closeness, convergence, estimation, unification.
- дивний 1. strange; synonyms (adi) extraneous, foreign, peculiar, abnormal, curious, extraordinary, irregular, mysterious, new, odd, outlandish, unusual, rare, alien, anomalous; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, familiar, typical, 2. wonderful (чудовий); synonyms (adj) marvelous, astonishing, excellent, remarkable, phenomenal, amazing, fantastic, grand, great, miraculous, strange, super, terrific, tremendous, (n) incredible; antonyms (adj) awful, terrible, unpleasant, dreadful, 3. curious; synonyms (adj) funny, interested, bizarre, inquiring, inquisitive, quaint, queer, quizzical, singular, weird, whimsical, interesting, intrusive, meddling, overcurious; antonym (adj) incurious, 4. funny; synonyms (adj) comical, amusing, droll, eccentric, facetious, fishy, diverting, comic, entertaining, farcical, humorous, laughable, suspicious, absurd, (adv) funnily; antonyms (adj) serious, grave, 5. astonishing; synonyms (adj) astounding, prodigious, stupendous, surprising, wonderful, breathtaking, striking, fabulous, shocking, staggering, startling, stunning, stupefying, wondrous, impressive; antonym (adj) unremarkable, 6. odd; synonyms (adj) grotesque, exceptional, chance, novel, individual, erratic, particular, different, unaccountable, casual, crazy, fanciful, atypical, leftover, occasional; antonym (adj) even, 7. unusual; synonyms (adj) uncommon, exotic, special, unprecedented, infrequent, notable, scarce, unaccustomed, unconventional, unnatural, unorthodox, fresh, uncanny, eerie, original; antonyms (adj) usual, common, customary, conventional, routine.
- **диво** miracle; *synonyms* (n) marvel, wonder, prodigy, phenomenon, surprise, wonderwork, event, sensation.
- дивовижний 1. wonderful (чудовий); synonyms (adj) extraordinary, marvelous, astonishing, excellent, remarkable, phenomenal, amazing, fantastic, grand, great, miraculous, strange, super, terrific, (n) incredible;

- antonyms (adj) awful, terrible, unpleasant, dreadful, 2. marvellous; synonyms (adj) tall, tremendous, wonderful, wondrous, improbable, fantastical, rattling, antic, grotesque, brisk, crying, enormous, foolish, grandiloquent, howling, 3. extraordinary; synonyms (adj) distinguished, curious, exceptional, odd, abnormal, bizarre, extra, rare, special, unusual, famous, memorable, notable, noteworthy, peculiar; antonyms (adj) ordinary, normal, everyday, 4. remarkable; synonyms (adj) conspicuous, illustrious, noticeable, outstanding, signal, singular, uncommon, prominent, funny, queer, splendid, celebrated, eminent, important, impressive; antonyms (adj) insignificant, unremarkable.
- дивовижно surprisingly; synonyms (adv) astonishingly, wonderfully, astoundingly, oddly, remarkably, unexpectedly, incredibly, marvelously, particularly, (adj) amazingly, egregiously, emphatically, famously, glaringly, prominently; antonym (adv) unremarkably.
- дивувати surprise; *synonyms* (*n*) fright, amazement, astonishment, surprisal, wonder, admiration, (*v*) astound, alarm, amaze, astonish, shock, startle, jolt, stun, catch.
- **ДИВУВАТИСЯ** wonder; *synonyms* (*v*) admire, query, question, reflect, speculate, (*n*) marvel, prodigy, admiration, amazement, astonishment, miracle, surprise, muse, phenomenon, wonderment.
- ДИЗАЙНЕР designer; synonyms (n) architect, couturier, creator, drawer, engineer, inventor, maker, decorator, (v) artist, projector; antonym (adj) off-therack.
- дикий wild; synonyms (adj) desert, waste, fierce, boisterous, violent, reckless, desolate, ferocious, furious, raging, rude, stormy, untamed, giddy, barbarous; antonyms (adj) calm, orderly, domestic, manageable, sane, cultivated, restrained, tame.
- **ДИКТОР** speaker; *synonyms* (n) loudspeaker, narrator, orator, president, spokesman, conversationalist, chairman, talker, utterer, principal.
- ДИКЦІЯ utterance; synonyms (n) declaration, expression, pronunciation, speech, exclamation, articulation, remark, statement, observation, language, phrase, speaking, tongue, voice, comment.
- **дилема** dilemma; *synonyms* (*n*) quandary, corner, fix, jam, mess, predicament, problem, crisis, difficulty, plight, doubt, scrape, riddle, (*adj*) embarrassment, perplexity.
- дилетант amateur; synonyms (adj) amateurish, inexpert, unskilled, inexperienced, untrained, unqualified, (n) novice, beginner, fan, apprentice, aspirant, devotee, lover, greenhorn; antonyms (adj) practiced, (n) professional, expert.
- дим smoke; *synonyms* (n) fumes, fog, mist, perfume, smoking, smoulder, (v) fume, reek, fumigate, puff, exhale, cure, burn, smolder, (adj) smudge.
- **димар** chimney; *synonyms* (n) stack, flue, shaft, smokestack, vent, gully, main, nostril, nozzle, tap, throat, trachea, weasand, aperture, escape.
- ДИМИТИСЯ smoke; *synonyms* (*n*) fumes, fog, mist, perfume, smoking, smoulder, (*v*) fume, reek, fumigate, puff, exhale, cure, burn, smolder, (*adj*) smudge.

- ДИМОХІД chimney; *synonyms* (n) stack, flue, shaft, smokestack, vent, gully, main, nostril, nozzle, tap, throat, trachea, weasand, aperture, escape.
- **ДИМЧАСТИЙ** muddy; *synonyms* (*adj*) boggy, cloudy, filthy, turbid, foul, dark, dingy, dull, grimy, marshy, miry, murky, sloppy, (*v*) dirty, blur; *antonyms* (*adj*) clear, clean, dry.
- динаміка 1. dynamics; synonyms (n) kinetics, motion, (v) statics, 2. dynamic; synonyms (adj) active, aggressive, dynamical, energetic, forceful, powerful, vigorous, lusty, animated, vibrant, driving, efficient, enthusiastic, live, mighty; antonyms (adj) dull, static.
- динамічний dynamic; synonyms (adj) active, aggressive, dynamical, energetic, forceful, powerful, vigorous, lusty, animated, vibrant, driving, efficient, enthusiastic, live, mighty; antonyms (adj) dull, static.
- ДИПЛОМ patent (патент); *synonyms* (*adj*) obvious, overt, apparent, evident, manifest, clear, conspicuous, open, palpable, plain, explicit, marked, noticeable, transparent, unmistakable; *antonym* (*adj*) unclear.
- дипломатичний diplomatic; synonyms (adj) tactful, careful, delicate, discreet, politic, suave, thoughtful, strategic; antonyms (adj) tactless, undiplomatic.
- дипломатія diplomacy; *synonyms* (n) finesse, tact, delicacy, politics, diplomatics, statecraft.
- **ДИРЕКТИВ** directive; *synonyms* (n) decree, direction, edict, instruction, order, ruling, rule, pronouncement, bylaw, command, injunction, law, (adj) directing, directional, guiding.
- ДИРЕКТИВА directive; synonyms (n) decree, direction, edict, instruction, order, ruling, rule, pronouncement, bylaw, command, injunction, law, (adj) directing, directional, guiding.
- **ДИРЕКТИВИ** directions; *synonyms* (n) advice, briefing, commands, orders, will, information.
- директивний directive; *synonyms* (n) decree, direction, edict, instruction, order, ruling, rule, pronouncement, bylaw, command, injunction, law, (adj) directing, directional, guiding.
- **директор 1.** director; *synonyms* (n) commander, manager, administrator, boss, chief, superintendent, chairman, coach, controller, guide, head, leader, master, principal, (v) conductor, **2.** chief; *synonyms* (adj) cardinal, capital, arch, central, essential, first, main, primary, sovereign, basic, (n) captain, executive, paramount, superior, top; *antonyms* (adj) minor, associate, secondary, **3.** manager; *synonyms* (n) director, governor, handler, supervisor, ruler, entrepreneur, inspector, officer, owner, trainer; *antonym* (n) underling.
- ДИРЕКЦІЯ management; synonyms (n) administration, conduct, guidance, command, control, direction, government, handling, leadership, charge, treatment, behavior, steerage, (v) manage, (adj) executive.
- диригент 1. director; synonyms (n) commander, manager, administrator, boss, chief, superintendent, chairman, coach, controller, guide, head, leader, master, principal, (v) conductor, 2. conductor; synonyms (n) director, chauffeur, pilot, ringleader, core, (v) guard; antonym (n) insulator.

- **ДИСЕРТАЦІЯ** thesis; *synonyms* (*n*) dissertation, matter, argument, essay, theme, topic, hypothesis, premise, proposition, assertion, contention, composition, paper, treatise, discourse.
- диск 1. disk; synonyms (n) disc, discus, dial, circle, diskette, face, record, round, wheel, dish, platter, saucer, 2. disc; synonyms (n) disk, book.
- ДИСКОВОД drive; *synonyms* (n) ride, force, campaign, crusade, thrust, cause, ambition, (v) push, actuate, chase, compel, urge, coerce, beat, carry; *antonyms* (n) apathy, inertia.
- ДИСКОМФОРТ discomfort; synonyms (n) pain, uneasiness, annoyance, anxiety, unease, agitation, displeasure, disquiet, distress, hurt, malaise, misery, restlessness, soreness, suffering; antonyms (v) ease, comfort.
- ДИСКОНТ discount; synonyms (n) deduction, rebate, allowance, bargain, decrease, reduction, (v) reduce, disregard, ignore, neglect, deduct, depreciate, cut, dismiss, reject; antonym (v) increase.
- ДИСКОНТУВАТИ discount; synonyms (n) deduction, rebate, allowance, bargain, decrease, reduction, (v) reduce, disregard, ignore, neglect, deduct, depreciate, cut, dismiss, reject; antonym (v) increase.
- ДИСКРЕДИТУВАТИ libel; synonyms (n) slander, aspersion, defamation, denigration, (v) insult, denigrate, asperse, calumniate, defame, lampoon, malign, slur, smear, backbite, blacken.
- дискримінація discrimination; synonyms (n) discernment, difference, differentiation, distinction, taste, discretion, sense, prejudice, favoritism, acumen, wisdom, choice, acuteness, penetration, (v) judgment; antonym (n) tolerance.
- **ДИСКУСІЙНИЙ** controversial; *synonyms* (*adj*) argumentative, disputed, arguable, debatable, disputable, disputatious, moot, polemic, polemical, questionable, (*v*) gladiatorial.
- **AMCKYCIA 1.** discussion; *synonyms* (*n*) argument, conference, conversation, debate, discourse, controversy, consultation, dialogue, consideration, dispute, negotiation, talk, contention, contest, chat, **2**. argument; *synonyms* (*n*) matter, proof, reason, hassle, altercation, arguing, brawl, clash, difference, disagreement, discussion, fight, justification, quarrel, reasoning; *antonyms* (*n*) agreement, harmony, **3**. controversy; *synonyms* (*n*) argumentation, conflict, squabble, row, competition, contestation, wrangle, fuss, battle, disputation, dissension, feud, issue, question, strife, **4**. debate; *synonyms* (*n*) argue, palaver, converse, deliberation, (*v*) contend, controvert, discuss, canvass, altercate, consider, deliberate, moot, agitate, cogitate, ponder; *antonym* (*v*) agree.
- дискутувати 1. discuss; synonyms (v) argue, debate, agitate, consult, deliberate, canvass, discourse, dispute, mention, moot, negotiate, reason, converse, weigh, controvert, 2. debate; synonyms (n) argumentation, contention, argument, controversy, disputation, consideration, difference, disagreement, discussion, (v) contest, contend, altercation, discuss, altercate, consider; antonym (v) agree.

- ДИСПЕТЧЕР operator; synonyms (n) driver, hustler, manipulator, agent, doer, speculator, actor, employee, clerk, businessperson, captain, financier, floozie, floozy, hooker
- ДИСПЛЕЙ display; synonyms (n) array, presentation, appearance, screen, demonstration, exhibition, (v) exhibit, show, disclose, parade, expose, produce, brandish, flaunt, indicate; antonym (v) conceal.
- ДИСПУТ dispute; *synonyms* (n) brawl, quarrel, debate, conflict, wrangle, difference, question, combat, (v) argue, contest, controversy, discuss, fight, row, squabble; *antonyms* (n) agreement, (v) agree.
- ДИСТАНЦІЯ distance; synonyms (n) remove, space, way, gap, aloofness, interval, altitude, measure, period, place, range, (v) dissociate, outdistance, outstrip, (adj) length; antonyms (n) nearness, proximity, closeness, intimacy, (v) associate.
- дисципліна discipline; synonyms (n) chastisement, correction, (v) control, castigate, chastise, train, chasten, exercise, correct, drill, educate, practice, breed, condition, cultivate.
- **дисциплінарний** disciplinary; *synonyms* (*adj*) disciplinal, corrective, disciplinarian, punitive, stern, strict, castigatory, penal, penalizing, retaliatory.
- ДИСЦИПЛІНУВАТИ school (ШКОЛА); synonyms
  (n) academy, class, sect, college, herd, shoal, swarm, (v)
  educate, instruct, train, coach, cultivate, discipline, edify, teach.
- дитина 1. child; synonyms (n) baby, boy, babe, bairn, brat, girl, infant, juvenile, kid, minor, toddler, tot, youngster, innocent, imp; antonym (n) adult, 2. infant; synonyms (n) child, nursling, (adj) young, 3. baby; synonyms (n) darling, honey, offspring, (v) coddle, indulge, pamper, cosset, mollycoddle, spoil, (adj) miniature, small, babyish, dear, dwarf, little; antonym (adj) giant, 4. kid; synonyms (n) teenager, kidskin, lad, nipper, (v) joke, jest, banter, chaff, mock, fool, jolly, dupe, rag, taunt, tease.
- **дитинство** childhood; *synonyms* (*n*) babyhood, boyhood, immaturity, infancy, puerility, youth, youthhood, age, education, background, childishness, juniority, (*adj*) ancient, infant, juvenile; *antonym* (*n*) adulthood.
- дитинча baby; *synonyms* (n) babe, child, darling, young, (v) coddle, indulge, pamper, cosset, mollycoddle, spoil, (adj) infant, miniature, small, babyish, dear; antonym (adj) giant.
- **ДИТЯ** child (ДИТИНа); synonyms (n) baby, boy, babe, bairn, brat, girl, infant, juvenile, kid, minor, toddler, tot, youngster, innocent, imp; antonym (n) adult.
- дитячий baby; synonyms (n) babe, child, darling, young, (v) coddle, indulge, pamper, cosset, mollycoddle, spoil, (adj) infant, miniature, small, babyish, dear; antonym (adj) giant.
- ДИФЕРЕНЦІАЛЬНИЙ differential; synonyms (adj) integral, different, totitive, exponential, logarithmic, (n) derivative, difference, distinction, fluxion, fluent, children, descendants, determination, earmark, feature.
- **ДИФЕРЕНЦІЮВАННЯ** differentiation; *synonyms*(n) difference, distinction, contrast, demarcation, discrimination, specialization, disparity, diorism,

- separation, dissimilarity, ( $\nu$ ) division, addition, approximation, equations, estimation.
- дихання 1. breath; *synonyms* (*n*) spirit, wind, air, inspiration, puff, aspiration, breather, breeze, flash, flatus, gust, instant, jiffy, respite, (*adj*) whisper, 2. breathing; *synonyms* (*n*) breath, (*adj*) animate, live, living, alive, 3. wind (вітер); *synonyms* (*n*) clue, gale, (*v*) coil, twist, curl, meander, turn, bend, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll, weave.
- **дихати** breathe; *synonyms* (*v*) blow, exhale, live, subsist, be, emit, exist, imply, rest, whisper, inspire, convey, heave, (*n*) respire, bespeak.
- диявол devil; synonyms (n) demon, fiend, ghost, daemon, deuce, monster, imp, rogue, (v) rag, torment, harass, bedevil, crucify, annoy, bother.
- діагноз diagnosis; synonyms (n) diagnosing, distinction, identification, examination, diorism, recognition, anatomy, breakdown, definition, differentiation, discovery, discrimination, division, forecast, prediction.
- діагностичний diagnostic; *synonyms* (*adj*) characteristic, individual, peculiar, proper, symptomatic, (*n*) criterion, (*v*) demonstrative, diacritical.
- **діаграма 1.** chart; synonyms (n) plan, plot, table, graphic, diagram, drawing, schematic, figure, illustration, (v) map, graph, sketch, design, draw, list, 2. diagram; synonyms (n) chart, outline, picture, plat, 3. graph.
- діалог dialogue; synonyms (n) talk, colloquy, conversation, interlocution, interview, chat, conference, dialog, discussion, talks, communication, duologue, speech, talking, consultation.
- діамант 1. diamond; synonyms (n) adamant, lozenge, infield, rhombus, square, rectangle, (adj) jewel, bijou, 2. brilliant; synonyms (adj) bright, splendid, glorious, illustrious, intelligent, luminous, magnificent, spectacular, sunny, vivid, brainy, diamond, gaudy, gifted, (v) smart; antonyms (adj) dull, dim, awful, dark.
- діаметр diameter; *synonyms* (n) caliber, width, diam, radius, breadth, diametral, length, size, broadness, module
- AIAHA3OH 1. compass; synonyms (n) range, scope, area, circle, circumference, extent, reach, room, breadth, (v) round, get, grasp, accomplish, achieve, (adv) beset, 2. range; synonyms (n) array, compass, domain, distance, (v) line, arrange, order, rank, roam, group, ramble, wander, align, gad, classify.
- **Діва** Virgin; *synonyms* (*adj*) pure, vestal, chaste, innocent, new, fresh, intact, untouched, unmixed, virginal, virtuous, unmarried, (*n*) maiden, maid, girl.
- дівочий virgin; synonyms (adj) pure, vestal, chaste, innocent, new, fresh, intact, untouched, unmixed, virginal, virtuous, unmarried, (n) maiden, maid, girl.
- дівчина 1. girl; synonyms (n) damsel, lady, daughter, fille, lass, maid, wench, virgin, quean, female, girlfriend, woman, 2. gill; synonyms (n) branchia, lamella, leech, sweetheart, (v) rivulet, gullet, rillet, rill, (adj) adze, ax, hatchet, mattock, pick, pickax.
- дівчинка girl; synonyms (n) damsel, lady, daughter, fille, lass, maid, wench, virgin, quean, female, girlfriend, woman.

- дід grandfather; synonyms (n) gramps, grandad, granddad, grandpa, grandpapa, grandsire, granddaddy, patriarch.
- дідусь grandfather (дід); synonyms (n) gramps, grandad, granddad, grandpa, grandpapa, grandsire, granddaddy, patriarch.
- ДІЄВИЙ efficient; synonyms (adj) effectual, competent, effective, able, capable, valid, efficacious, operative, practical, adept, adroit, neat, regular, (v) clever, active; antonyms (adj) incompetent, inefficient.
- **ДІЄВІСТЬ 1.** efficiency; *synonyms* (*n*) capability, effectiveness, ability, efficacy, effect, capacity, aptitude, energy, output, potency, proficiency, ease, (*v*) agency, action; *antonyms* (*n*) inefficiency, incompetence, largeness, **2.** effectiveness; *synonyms* (*n*) strength, result, powerfulness, effectivity, effectuality, effectualness, force, influence, success, usefulness, utility, validity, expediency, power, weight; *antonyms* (*n*) uselessness, ineffectiveness, **3.** efficacy; *synonyms* (*n*) efficaciousness, efficiency, might, vigor, virtue; *antonym* (*n*) inefficacy.
- дієслово verb; synonym (n) vocable.
- дізнаватися learn; synonyms (v) discover, get, know, find, ascertain, have, hear, determine, acquire, con, perceive, study, tell, understand, gather.
- **ДІЗНАТИСЯ** learn; *synonyms* (v) discover, get, know, find, ascertain, have, hear, determine, acquire, con, perceive, study, tell, understand, gather.
- дійовий 1. valid (дійсний); synonyms (adj) legal, sound, right, genuine, solid, forcible, substantial, authentic, good, legitimate, powerful, rightful, strong, true, cogent; antonyms (adj) unacceptable, invalid, annulled, bogus, illogical, 2. acting; synonyms (adj) active, interim, temporary, provisional, (n) enactment, drama, playing; antonym (adj) permanent.
- дійсний 1. valid; synonyms (adj) legal, sound, right, genuine, solid, forcible, substantial, authentic, good, legitimate, powerful, rightful, strong, true, cogent; antonyms (adj) unacceptable, invalid, annulled, bogus, illogical, 2. real; synonyms (adj) material, physical, concrete, literal, natural, positive, pure, native, absolute, certain, honest, just, sincere, tangible, (v) actual; antonyms (adi) unreal, imaginary, apparent, artificial, fake, deceptive, false, fantasy, imitation, insubstantial, mock, nominal, (v) pretend, 3. true; synonyms (adj) real, faithful, even, accurate, correct, exact, straight, truthful, direct, factual, loyal, precise, proper, reliable, (v) square; antonyms (adj) inaccurate, untrue, 4. virtual; synonyms (adj) potential, practical, implicit, comparative, constructive, qualified, quasi, replicated, simulated, basic, energizing, fundamental, indirect, tacit, unacknowledged, 5. available; synonyms (adj) accessible, free, possible, attainable, convenient, handy, obtainable, open, ready, uncommitted, usable, vacant, valid, (adv) present, (n) applicable; antonyms (adj) unavailable, occupied, suppressed, concealed, engaged, 6. genuine; synonyms (adj) unsophisticated, candid, artless, hearty, unaffected, unfeigned, very, earnest, intrinsic, original, veritable, clean, chaste, devout, authenticated; antonyms (adj) insincere, affected, dishonest, hypocritical, replica, 7. actual; synonyms (adj) existent, indisputable, effective, existing, extant,

- immediate, bodily; *antonyms* (*adj*) hypothetical, supposed, **8**. authentic; *synonyms* (*adj*) believable, trustworthy, credible, convincing, realistic, unquestionable, (*v*) authoritative; *antonym* (*adj*) unrealistic.
- **дійсність 1.** validity; *synonyms* (*n*) force, truth, authority, legitimacy, soundness, certainty, cogency, effect, power, effectiveness, reality, authenticity, vigor, credibility, hardness, **2.** deed; *synonyms* (*n*) accomplishment, achievement, act, feat, behavior, action, exploit, covenant, activity, document, doing, effort, fact, title, agency, **3.** reality; *synonyms* (*n*) existence, actuality, realism, being, realness, entity, genuineness, loyalty, positive, substance, trueness, veracity, verity, (*v*) deed, efficiency; *antonyms* (*n*) fantasy, delusion, dream, imagination, vision.
- **дійсно 1.** actually; synonyms (adv) really, truly, quite, absolutely, presently, correctly, literally, authentically, right, physically, bodily, easily, effectually, indisputably, truthfully, 2. indeed; synonyms (adv) actually, certainly, exactly, much, surely, greatly, clearly, definitely, positively, precisely, so, very, (int) forsooth, (adj) verily, well; antonym (adv) possibly, 3. really; synonyms (adv) honestly, genuinely, real, simply, practically, essentially, extremely, highly, just, completely, legitimately, substantially, (adj) indeed, sincerely, earnestly, 4. quite; synonyms (adv) altogether, all, entirely, fully, sheer, enough, even, fairly, rather, stark, totally, wholly, awfully, far, (adj) outright.
- ДІЛЕННЯ division; synonyms (n) department, disagreement, allotment, branch, break, class, compartment, part, section, split, cleavage, classification, category, (adj) constituent, (v) distribution; antonyms (n) closeness, convergence, estimation, unification.
- ділер dealer; synonyms (n) merchant, trader, monger, seller, vendor, marketer, agent, broker, salesperson, trafficker, bargainer; antonym (n) user.
- ділити 1. divide; *synonyms* (*v*) cut, distribute, part, dissociate, apportion, detach, disconnect, dismember, dispense, separate, share, split, deal, distinguish, (*n*) break; *antonyms* (*v*) unite, join, 2. share; *synonyms* (*n*) piece, portion, dole, lot, allotment, division, interest, proportion, ration, (*v*) participate, allot, partake, divide, partition, assign; *antonym* (*v*) control.
- діло 1. affair; synonyms (n) matter, business, concern, event, job, occasion, occurrence, amour, duty, happening, incident, issue, party, subject, theme, 2. engagement; synonyms (n) combat, battle, appointment, commitment, conflict, contract, contest, fight, betrothal, date, employment, encounter, employ, agreement, (v) action, 3. business; synonyms (n) affair, calling, corporation, deal, occupation, profession, trade, vocation, work, affairs, commerce, dealings, finance, firm, house; antonyms (adj) charitable, housing, 4. deed; synonyms (n) accomplishment, achievement, act, feat, behavior, exploit, covenant, activity, document, doing, effort, fact, title, agency, certificate, 5. matter; synonyms (n) material, substance, article, body, import, interest, item, topic, instance, consequence, content, difficulty, (v) case, count, weigh.

- ДІЛОВИЙ business; *synonyms* (n) employment, matter, subject, affair, calling, concern, corporation, deal, event, job, occupation, profession, trade, vocation, work; *antonyms* (adj) charitable, housing.
- діловитість enterprise; synonyms (n) business, company, concern, endeavor, activity, adventure, energy, courage, effort, endeavour, firm, initiative, spirit, venture, corporation.
- дільниця district; *synonyms* (n) area, quarter, region, community, neighborhood, territory, circuit, county, field, jurisdiction, province, section, domain, (adj) local, (v) zone.
- ділянка 1. area (площа); synonyms (n) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood, section, sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land, 2. lot; synonyms (n) batch, destiny, fate, doom, fortune, portion, slice, allot, bunch, chance, circle, group, set, share, (v) deal, 3. piece; synonyms (n) cut, division, fragment, part, article, component, composition, hunk, lump, patch, bit, block, chunk, coin, constituent, 4. parcel; synonyms (n) lot, bale, pack, bundle, package, packet, plot, allotment, dole, area, detachment, (v) distribute, apportion, divide, cluster, 5. sector; synonyms (n) department, branch, segment, arm, quadrant, piece, quarter, zone, arena.
- **дім 1.** house; *synonyms* (n) family, home, dwelling, firm, abode, domicile, building, edifice, habitation, housing, establishment, structure, ancestry, (v) accommodate, lodge, **2.** home; *synonyms* (n) fireside, house, base, household, place, residence, shelter, asylum, fatherland, habitat, lodging, land, environment, (*adj*) domestic, internal.
- д**іра** hole; *synonyms* (*n*) cavity, aperture, crack, den, pocket, breach, break, burrow, cave, corner, depression, fix, hollow, lair, (*adj*) gap.
- дірка 1. hole; synonyms (n) cavity, aperture, crack, den, pocket, breach, break, burrow, cave, corner, depression, fix, hollow, lair, (adj) gap, 2. bore; synonyms (v) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (n) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (adj) pother; antonyms (v) interest, excite, fascinate.
- діставати 1. get; synonyms (v) acquire, gain, attain, become, catch, earn, buy, come, fall, fetch, take, achieve, beget, bring, capture; antonyms (v) lose, give, leave, 2. obtain; synonyms (v) get, have, accomplish, derive, effect, collect, extract, find, gather, make, prevail, procure, receive, extort, compass, 3. reach; synonyms (v) range, overtake, obtain, extend, pass, go, touch, equal, form, arrive, contact, (n) stretch, extent, area. capacity.
- дітище 1. child (дитина); synonyms (n) baby, boy, babe, bairn, brat, girl, infant, juvenile, kid, minor, toddler, tot, youngster, innocent, imp; antonym (n) adult, 2. offspring; synonyms (n) issue, progeny, brood, children, family, child, descendant, descendants, lineage, posterity, race, seed, (v) breed, fruit, generation.
- діючий 1. acting; synonyms (adj) active, interim, temporary, provisional, (n) enactment, drama, playing; antonym (adj) permanent, 2. working; synonyms (adj) operative, practical, busy, acting, occupied, effective, engaged, (n) operation, running, functioning, play,

- agency, movement, performance, go; antonyms (adj) passive, unemployed, 3. active; synonyms (adj) energetic, alert, diligent, live, lively, nimble, strong, agile, alive, brisk, dynamic, forcible, healthy, mercurial, quick; antonyms (adj) dormant, inactive, sluggish, idle, latent, lethargic, sedentary, slow, extinct, quiet, 4. alive; synonyms (adj) living, sensible, vivacious, animated, responsive, aware, eager, acute, animate, awake, extant, keen, intelligent; antonyms (adj) dead, deceased, inanimate, 5. operating; synonyms (n) exploitation, farming, (adj) working, employed, energical, loose, managing, performing.
- дія 1. action; synonyms (n) act, accomplishment, activity, agency, battle, deed, effect, engagement, fight, movement, performance, play, behavior, case, (v) achievement; antonyms (n) inaction, inactivity, 2. act; synonyms (n) action, move, statute, decree, do, feat, law, (v) behave, go, perform, acquit, enact, feign, operate, pretend; antonym (v) refrain, 3. operation; synonyms (n) execution, business, management, function, functioning, running, mission, task, job, employment, exercise, force, manipulation, operations, procedure, 4. work (робота); synonyms (n) book, composition, occupation, service, (v) labor, toil, cultivate, exploit, ferment, form, manipulate, operation, run, serve, (adj) trade; antonyms (v) idle, malfunction, 5. working; synonyms (adj) operative, practical, active, busy, acting, occupied, effective, engaged, operating, operational, brisk, diligent, energetic, functional, (n) workings; antonyms (adj) passive, unemployed, 6. effect; synonyms (n) consequence, product, result, sequel, aftermath, conclusion, impression, (v) accomplish, achieve, create, cause, complete, bring, carry, execute; antonym (n) reason, 7. performance; synonyms (n) discharge, fulfillment, observance, completion, implementation, recital, work, doing, fact, compliance, expression, production, rendition, show, (v) efficiency; antonyms (n) omission, practice.
- ДІЯЛЬНИЙ 1. busy; synonyms (adj) active, brisk, assiduous, engaged, occupied, agile, crowded, industrious, meddlesome, officious, live, diligent, earnest, (v) occupy, employ; antonyms (adj) idle, free, inactive, 2. active; synonyms (adj) energetic, alert, busy, effective, lively, nimble, strong, alive, dynamic, forcible, healthy, mercurial, quick, spirited, (v) smart; antonyms (adj) dormant, sluggish, latent, lethargic, sedentary, slow, extinct, passive, quiet.
- ДІЯ.ЛЬНІСТЬ 1. action; synonyms (n) act, accomplishment, activity, agency, battle, deed, effect, engagement, fight, movement, performance, play, behavior, case, (v) achievement; antonyms (n) inaction, inactivity, 2. activity; synonyms (n) action, activeness, exercise, liveliness, job, agility, diligence, energy, enterprise, industry, life, occupation, vigor, work, enthusiasm; antonym (n) inactiveness.
- ДІЯННЯ 1. action; synonyms (n) act, accomplishment, activity, agency, battle, deed, effect, engagement, fight, movement, performance, play, behavior, case, (v) achievement; antonyms (n) inaction, inactivity, 2. deed; synonyms (n) feat, action, exploit, covenant, document,

- doing, effort, fact, title, certificate, do, job, measure, move, paper.
- діяти 1. act; synonyms (n) accomplishment, action, move, play, statute, decree, do, feat, (v) achievement, behave, deed, go, perform, acquit, enact; antonym (v) refrain, 2. operate; synonyms (v) act, function, run, direct, employ, handle, manage, proceed, work, maneuver, exercise, fly, control, drive, engage, 3. work (робота); synonyms (n) business, employment, task, book, composition, (v) labor, operate, toil, cultivate, exploit, ferment, form, manipulate, (adj) job, trade; antonyms (v) idle, malfunction, 4. affect; synonyms (v) touch, fake, feign, impress, pretend, strike, concern, dispose, dissemble, hit, influence, involve, lead, pertain, regard, 5. proceed; synonyms (v) advance, pass, originate, ensue, flow, extend, arise, continue, emanate, happen, issue, progress, result, stem, elapse, **6**. tool; synonyms (n) instrument, implement, machine, puppet, pawn, device, gadget, apparatus, appliance, cock, contrivance, creature, agent, medium, organ, 7. run; synonyms (v) rule, dash, gush, race, career, conduct, hasten, hurry, pour, rush, (n) campaign, course, range, sequence, (adj) stream.
- для 1. for; *synonyms* (*prep*) because, behind, by, per, during, on, toward, (*conj*) considering, since, (*adv*) against, as, therefore, hence, 2. to; *synonyms* (*prep*) at, in, about, before, into, near, towards, until, unto, (*adv*) versus, (*v*) till.
- ДМУХАТИ blow (дути); synonyms (n) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (v) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (adj) gasp; antonyms (v) calm, save.
- дно bottom; *synonyms* (n) base, basis, backside, bed, behind, foot, footing, back, arse, ass, bum, butt, buttocks, craft, floor; *antonyms* (n) top, pinnacle, (adj) highest.
- до 1. to; synonyms (prep) at, by, in, about, before, against, into, near, toward, towards, until, unto, (adv) versus, (prf) on, (v) till, 2. till; synonyms (n) drawer, tiller, cashbox, (v) cultivate, plow, hoe, farm, dig, turn, 3. at; synonyms (prep) a, (n) astatine, (adv) along, (prf) all, completely, wholly, (adj) entertainment, levee, party, reception, conversazione, home, soiree, 4. by; synonyms (prep) beside, of, per, with, (adv) aside, away, past, through, apart, beyond, via, (adv, prep) alongside, (adj) over, 5. before; synonyms (prep) fore, facing, (adv) above, ahead, afore, ago, earlier, already, forward, previously, beforehand, ere, formerly, (adj) preceding, prior; antonyms (prep) later, behind, after, afterward.
- доба 1. age; synonyms (n) period, aeon, day, era, time, cycle, years, antiquity, epoch, eternity, generation, (v) mature, grow, ripen, develop, 2. era; synonyms (n) age, date, style, 3. day; synonyms (n) light, daylight, daytime, crisis; antonyms (n) nighttime, night.
- ДОБИВАТИСЯ 1. achieve; synonyms (v) accomplish, reach, complete, do, effect, execute, gain, perform, acquire, act, attain, fulfill, get, make, manage; antonym (v) lose, 2. obtain; synonyms (v) have, achieve, earn, derive, buy, collect, extract, find, gather, prevail, procure, receive, take, extort, compass.
- добре 1. well; *synonyms* (*adv*) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, good, (*adj*) healthy, fit, shaft, sound,

- robust, (n) fountain, spring, pit, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous, 2. nicely; synonyms (adv) well, gently, agreeably, exactly, pleasantly, pleasingly, subtly, correctly, daintily, deliciately, deliciously, (adj) effectually; antonym (adv) unpleasantly, 3. okay; synonyms (adv) fine, (adj) alright, fair, (int) yes, (n) approval, authorization, agreement, blessing, (v) approve, sanction, consent, endorse, authorize, countenance, accept; antonyms (adj) unsatisfactory, (v) forbid.
- добрий 1. good; synonyms (adi) able, benefit, delicious, right, efficient, capable, excellent, fine, nice, superior, well, advantageous, (n) benign, advantage, gain; antonyms (adj) disobedient, poor, wicked, unpleasant, (n) evil, bad, 2. kind; synonyms (n) form, helpful, sort, brand, breed, class, gentle, type, variety, benevolent, (adj) friendly, generous, good, humane, affectionate; antonyms (adj) unkind, callous, cruel, hardhearted, mean, merciless, nasty, spiteful, uncaring, upsetting, disagreeable, unfeeling, 3. gentle; synonyms (adi) clement, calm, easy, soft, affable, balmy, kind, mild, tame, feeble, amiable, bland, compassionate, delicate, docile; antonyms (adj) caustic, fierce, harsh, loud, violent, rough, abrupt, heavy, sarcastic, sheer, steep, 4. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, lovely, neat, likable, agreeable, correct, decent, difficult, enjoyable, exact, particular, precise, elegant; antonym (adj) horrible.
- добро good; *synonyms* (*adj*) able, benefit, delicious, right, efficient, capable, excellent, fine, nice, superior, well, advantageous, (*n*) benign, advantage, gain; *antonyms* (*adj*) disobedient, poor, wicked, unpleasant, (*n*) evil, bad.
- добробут 1. welfare; synonyms (n) prosperity, benefit, good, happiness, health, advantage, sake, interest, wellbeing, upbeat, (adv) weal, 2. prosperity; synonyms (n) affluence, success, wealth, flourish, fortune, welfare, opulence, abundance, prosperousness, growth, riches, thrift, ease, plenty; antonym (n) poverty, 3. health (ЗДОРОВ'Я); synonyms (n) condition, fitness, pledge, strength, form, salubrity, shape, safety, security, bail, comfort, crankness, engage, euphoria, (v) cure, 4. Success; synonyms (n) conquest, achievement, hit, passing, accomplishment, effectiveness, triumph, victory, achiever, luck, win, fruition, efficacy, attainment, winner; antonyms (n) failure, flop, debacle, defeat, disappointment, prevention.
- добровільний 1. voluntary; synonyms (adj) spontaneous, optional, deliberate, gratuitous, intentional, unforced, willing, willful, elective, unpaid, (n) volunteer; antonyms (adj) involuntary, compulsory, forced, instinctive, 2. willing; synonyms (adj) agreeable, disposed, ready, voluntary, amenable, inclined, prepared, enthusiastic, consenting, obliging, content, desirous, game, glad, conformable; antonyms (adj) unwilling, reluctant, 3. spontaneous; synonyms (adj) automatic, natural, impromptu, improvised, extemporaneous, impetuous, impulsive, offhand, unaffected, easy, informal, innate, unconstrained, unrestrained, (v) free; antonyms (adj) planned, prearranged.

- доброволець volunteer; synonyms (n) voluntary, (v) offer, proffer, tender, extend, propose, submit, (adj) unpaid.
- добродійний charitable; *synonyms* (*adj*) merciful, benevolent, clement, gentle, kind, bountiful, generous, humane, kindly, lenient, liberal, magnanimous, philanthropic, compassionate, forbearing; *antonyms* (*adj*) unforgiving, mean, nasty, uncharitable.
- ДОБРОДІЙНІСТЬ charity; *synonyms* (*n*) bounty, dole, favor, aid, generosity, kindness, liberality, mercy, virtue, clemency, compassion, gift, pity, (*v*) almsgiving, (*adi*) benignity; *antonyms* (*n*) miserliness, intolerance.
- доброзичливий sympathetic; synonyms (adj) kind, compassionate, kindly, congenial, tender, merciful, humane, agreeable, favorable, friendly, considerate, (n) gentle, caring, (v) affectionate, pitiful; antonyms (adj) unsympathetic, hardhearted, unfeeling.
- ДОБРОЗИЧЛИВІСТЬ 1. goodwill; synonyms (n) friendship, friendliness, amity, grace, kindness, altruism, neighborliness, blessing, charity, compassion, concord, errand, expedition, generosity, help; antonyms (n) hostility, malice, 2. kindness; synonyms (n) benevolence, elemency, courtesy, affection, benignity, consideration, cordiality, favor, gentleness, goodness, graciousness, humanity, fondness, amiability, geniality; antonyms (n) unkindness, callousness, cruelty, miserliness, nastiness, spite, unfriendliness, maliciousness.
- доброта 1. goodness; *synonyms* (n) generosity, excellence, good, kindness, benefit, benevolence, graciousness, morality, virtue, worth, charity, (adj) benignity, gentleness, favor, beneficence; *antonyms* (n) evil, wickedness, 2. kindness; *synonyms* (n) clemency, compassion, courtesy, affection, consideration, cordiality, friendliness, goodness, grace, humanity, fondness, amiability, geniality, love, pity; *antonyms* (n) unkindness, callousness, cruelty, miserliness, nastiness, spite, unfriendliness, maliciousness.
- доброчесність virtue; *synonyms* (*n*) chastity, honor, excellence, goodness, honesty, decency, morality, quality, probity, efficacy, good, modesty, potency, (*adj*) merit, attribute; *antonyms* (*n*) wickedness, guilt.
- ДОБРОЯКІСНИЙ sound; *synonyms* (*n*) echo, peal, (*v*) ring, chime, fast, (*adj*) reasonable, complete, healthy, fit, good, just, rational, right, sane, sensible; *antonyms* (*n*) silence, (*adj*) illogical, unsound, confused.
- ДОБРЯЧИЙ decent; synonyms (adj) proper, adequate, appropriate, acceptable, becoming, comely, decorous, honest, modest, respectable, right, seemly, sufficient, chaste, ethical; antonyms (adj) immoral, unwholesome, inappropriate, disreputable, filthy, inadequate, indecent, unsuitable.
- ДОБУВАТИ obtain; synonyms (v) gain, acquire, get, have, achieve, attain, earn, accomplish, derive, effect, buy, collect, extract, find, gather; antonym (v) lose.
- довгий long; synonyms (adj) extended, lengthy, dragging, far, (v) aspire, desire, hanker, languish, yearn, ache, hunger, wish, crave, (n) extensive, large; antonyms (adj) short, brief.
- **ДΟΒΓΟ** long; *synonyms* (*adj*) extended, lengthy, dragging, far, (*v*) aspire, desire, hanker, languish, yearn,

- ache, hunger, wish, crave, (n) extensive, large; **antonyms** (adj) short, brief.
- довершувати сар; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (*v*) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.
- довжина length; synonyms (n) extent, distance, range, duration, compass, depth, dimension, longness, measurement, size, quantity, degree, (v) expanse, tract, area; antonyms (n) briefness, shortness, width.
- **довід 1**. argument; synonyms (n) controversy, debate, matter, proof, reason, hassle, altercation, arguing, brawl, clash, contention, difference, disagreement, discussion, fight; antonyms (n) agreement, harmony, 2. proof; synonyms (n) confirmation, demonstration, probation, argument, authentication, evidence, sign, substantiation, validation, verification, experiment, indication, essay, criterion, establishment.
- ДОВІДАТИСЯ learn; *synonyms* (v) discover, get, know, find, ascertain, have, hear, determine, acquire, con, perceive, study, tell, understand, gather.
- довідка 1. reference; synonyms (n) citation, mention, quotation, quote, allusion, bearing, connection, recommendation, innuendo, annotation, character, concern, consultation, (v) cite, refer, 2. inquiry; synonyms (n) examination, enquiry, investigation, exploration, hearing, inquest, query, question, research, trial, demand, analysis, inspection, probe, (v) search.
- довідник 1. directory; synonyms (n) catalogue, file, list, record, handbook, roll, catalog, guide, listing, register, 2. dictionary; synonyms (n) lexicon, wordbook, book, language, onomasticon, reference, 3. guide; synonyms (n) escort, directory, attendant, control, usher, chief, (v) direct, conduct, govern, drive, channel, bring, advise, cicerone, convey; antonym (v) follow.
- **ДОВІДУВАТИСЯ 1.** ask; synonyms (ν) inquire, request, appeal, beg, demand, interrogate, question, take, beseech, call, charge, claim, consult, crave, invite; antonym (ν) answer, **2.** consult; synonyms (ν) confer, consider, negotiate, advise, deliberate, refer, discuss, reason, canvass, confab, confabulate, (n) talk, **3.** discover; synonyms (ν) ascertain, discern, disclose, see, find, perceive, catch, detect, determine, divulge, expose, hear, impart, observe, trace, **4.** learn; synonyms (ν) discover, get, know, have, acquire, con, study, tell, understand, gather, assimilate, instruct, read, teach, absorb.
- довільний 1. arbitrary; synonyms (adj) absolute, capricious, dictatorial, optional, erratic, random, peremptory, masterful, haphazard, autocratic, discretionary, dogmatic, domineering, freakish, imperious, 2. random; synonyms (adj) accidental, aimless, irregular, patchy, fortuitous, arbitrary, casual, indiscriminate, incidental, unplanned, purposeless, (n) chance, accident, hazard, (adv) helter-skelter; antonym (adj) systematic.
- ДОВІРА 1. credit; *synonyms* (*n*) credence, appreciation, belief, commendation, recognition, reputation, advance, account, acknowledgment, confidence, (*v*) believe, accredit, ascribe, assign, attribute; *antonyms* (*n*) cash, (*v*) debit, discredit, 2. confidence; *synonyms* (*n*) assurance, trust, certainty, certitude, faith, hope,

- conviction, credit, expectation, intimacy, nerve, reliance, security, sureness, authority; *antonyms* (n) insecurity, uncertainty, doubt, nervousness, anxiety, diffidence, distrust, fear, timidity, 3. belief; *synonyms* (n) assumption, doctrine, feeling, idea, impression, opinion, supposition, thought, view, dogma, guess, hypothesis, judgment, notion, (v) mind; *antonyms* (n) disbelief, unbelief, 4. trust; *synonyms* (n) charge, rely, cartel, responsibility, dependence, care, office, combine, tick, commission, (v) confide, commend, entrust, expect, duty; *antonyms* (v) disbelieve, mistrust, 5. reliance; *synonyms* (n) dependency, presumption.
- довірливий confident; synonyms (adj) bold, positive, sure, brave, hopeful, sanguine, secure, fearless, forward, assertive, convinced, decisive, (v) assured, certain, cocksure; antonyms (adj) insecure, uncertain, anxious, frightened, pessimistic, timid, hesitant, unsure.
- довір'я 1. confidence; synonyms (n) assurance, trust, belief, certainty, certitude, faith, hope, conviction, credence, credit, expectation, intimacy, nerve, reliance, security; antonyms (n) insecurity, uncertainty, doubt, nervousness, anxiety, diffidence, distrust, fear, timidity, 2. trust; synonyms (n) charge, confidence, rely, cartel, responsibility, dependence, care, office, combine, tick, (v) believe, confide, commend, entrust, expect; antonyms (v) disbelieve, mistrust, 3. dependence: synonyms (n) addiction, dependance, dependency, habit, (adj) contingency; antonyms (n) independence, selfgovernment, self-sufficiency, 4. faith (Bipa); synonyms (n) creed, cult, allegiance, fidelity, piety, religion, church, denomination, constancy, doctrine, honor, loyalty, persuasion, troth, (adj) honesty; antonym (n) unbelief, 5. credit; synonyms (n) appreciation, commendation, recognition, reputation, advance, account, acknowledgment, fame, influence, loan, (v) accredit, ascribe, assign, attribute, (adj) merit; antonyms (n) cash, (v) debit, discredit, 6. reliance; synonym (n) presumption.
- AOBIPATH 1. credit; synonyms (n) credence, appreciation, belief, commendation, recognition, reputation, advance, account, acknowledgment, confidence, (v) believe, accredit, ascribe, assign, attribute; antonyms (n) cash, (v) debit, discredit, 2. believe; synonyms (v) think, assume, conceive, consider, guess, reckon, understand, accept, expect, hope, imagine, suppose, suspect, apprehend, (n) trust; antonyms (v) disbelieve, distrust, 3. trust; synonyms (n) charge, credit, faith, reliance, rely, assurance, cartel, responsibility, dependence, care, office, combine, (v) confide, commend, entrust; antonyms (v) doubt, mistrust.
- ДОВІЧНИЙ 1. eternal; synonyms (adj) constant, endless, perpetual, ceaseless, continual, everlasting, lasting, aeonian, boundless, deathless, enduring, immortal, unending, ageless, durable; antonyms (adj) temporary, mortal, short-lived, finite, 2. life (життя); synonyms (n) animation, energy, spirit, activity, being, biography, dash, enthusiasm, existence, exuberance, live, briskness, career, autobiography, endurance; antonym (n) lethargy.
- Д**ОВКОЛА** about; *synonyms* (*prep*) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, (*adv*) around,

- approximately, almost, nearly, most, roughly, in, nearby, (adj) some, near; antonyms (prep) exactly, precisely.
- authenticate, attest, display, establish, exhibit, present, show, argue, certify, confirm, evidence, exemplify, explain, indicate; antonyms (v) disprove, conceal, 2. prove; synonyms (v) demonstrate, manifest, examine, approve, assert, check, corroborate, essay, evince, test, try, verify, ascertain, attempt, substantiate, 3. argue; synonyms (v) contend, oppose, quarrel, reason, altercate, contest, convince, debate, declare, discuss, expostulate, fight, object, (n) dispute, question; antonyms (v) agree, denv.
- доволі enough; synonyms (adv) rather, plenty, amply, adequately, satisfaction, fairly, fully, (n) adequacy, fill, sufficiency, (adj) ample, sufficient, adequate, competent, decent; antonym (adj) inadequate.
- догана 1. blame; synonyms (v) accuse, arraign, censure, reprimand, charge, reproach, chide, fault, rebuke, attribute, (n) attack, rap, onus, accusation, allegation; antonyms (v) pardon, absolve, praise, 2. telling; synonyms (adj) significant, revealing, effective, effectual, emphatic, impressive, pregnant, cogent, powerful, forceful, potent, trenchant, (n) recounting, relation, notice.
- догляд 1. attendance; synonyms (n) presence, attending, audience, turnout, hearing, tendance, attendancy, bodyguard, crowd, gallery, tendment, assemblage, assembly, congregation, draw; antonyms (n) absence, nonattendance, 2. attention; synonyms (n) mind, aid, alertness, care, consideration, heed, notice, attentiveness, caution, concentration, deliberation, diligence, ear, nursing, observation; antonyms (n) inattention, neglect, 3. care; synonyms (n) attention, bother, concern. apprehension, custody, keep, maintenance, worry, attendance, affection, burden, fear, (v) anxiety, charge, administer; antonyms (n) carelessness, recklessness, rashness, thoughtlessness, (v) disregard, 4. keeping; synonyms (n) conservation, guardianship, holding, observance, preservation, protection, retention, safekeeping, trust, ward, coloring; antonym (n) end.
- доглядальниця nurse; synonyms (n) nurture, doctor, amah, (v) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- ДОГЛЯДАТИ 1. attend; *synonyms* (v) accompany, assist, escort, serve, advert, aid, conduct, follow, hear, help, listen, look, minister, (n) tend, doctor, 2. shepherd; *synonyms* (n) pastor, clergyman, sheepherder, sheepman, priest, presbyter, churchman, divine, ecclesiastic, (v) guide, lead, guard, cowherd, direct, marshal, 3. tend; *synonyms* (v) incline, lean, nurse, attend, contribute, nurture, run, go, gravitate, nourish, carry, conduce, mind, verge, watch; *antonym* (v) neglect.
- ДОГЛЯДАЧ keeper; synonyms (n) custodian, curator, guardian, guard, warden, warder, caretaker, owner, protector, steward, watchman, custos.
- ДОГМА doctrine; *synonyms* (n) creed, belief, credo, dogma, philosophy, conviction, lesson, canon, faith, gospel, ism, principle, school, tenet.

- ДОГМАТ formula; synonyms (n) form, law, convention, expression, formality, method, principle, rule, canon, fashion, figure, formulary, pattern, prescription, procedure.
- договір 1. agreement; synonyms (n) accord, acquiescence, concord, accordance, coincidence, contract, acceptance, appointment, arrangement, compliance, confirmation, conformity, correspondence, covenant, settlement; antonyms (n) disagreement, argument, conflict, discord, rejection, dispute, resistance, 2. treaty; synonyms (n) agreement, convention, protocol, pact, alliance, compact, peace, bargain, deal, promise, armistice, charter, 3. convention; synonyms (n) conference, congress, meeting, assembly, convocation, council, custom, tradition, assemblage, gathering, habit, practice, fashion, company, bond, 4. contract; synonyms (n) agree, (v) concentrate, condense, narrow, catch, compress, constrict, shrink, wrinkle, abbreviate, diminish, lessen, stipulate, (adj) abridge, shorten; antonyms (v) expand, widen, stretch, 5. covenant; synonyms (n) deed, testament, transaction, stipulation, treaty, concordat, (v) vow, pledge, undertake, engage.
- договірний contractual; synonym (adj) legal. догоджати please; synonyms (v) delight, gratify, amuse, charm, entertain, like, oblige, enchant, enrapture, accommodate, divert, gladden, indulge, (adj) enjoy, content; antonyms (v) displease, annoy, anger, irritate, distress
- ДОДАВАННЯ addition; synonyms (n) accession, accessory, addendum, extension, increase, accretion, afterthought, annex, appendage, attachment, augmentation, complement, extra, gain, (prep) accumulation; antonyms (n) subtraction, removal, estimation.
- додавати add; *synonyms* (v) calculate, include, join, total, figure, lend, mix, divide, subtract, gather, accumulate, adjoin, affix, annex, (n) addition; *antonym* (v) detach.
- ДОДАНИЙ attached; synonyms (adj) connected, affectionate, affiliated, committed, associated, devoted, fond, loving, loyal, near; antonyms (adj) detached, separate, unmarried.
- ДОДАТИ add (додавати); synonyms (v) calculate, include, join, total, figure, lend, mix, divide, subtract, gather, accumulate, adjoin, affix, annex, (n) addition; antonym (v) detach.
- додатковий 1. additional; synonyms (adj) added, extra, supplementary, accessory, ancillary, another, further, more, second, spare, increased, adscititious, adventitious, auxiliary, (pron) other; antonyms (adj) less, main, 2. complementary; synonyms (adj) complemental, additional, reciprocal, correlative, decimal, divisible, figurate, fractional, incommensurable, interrelated, matched, paired, prime, collateral, accompanying, 3. supplementary; synonyms (adj) subsidiary, supplemental, secondary, subordinate, new, 4. further; synonyms (adv) farther, again, also, moreover, (v) advance, encourage, forward, foster, accelerate, elevate, help, benefit, boost, (n) promote, (phr) expedite, 5. extra; synonyms (adj) over, odd, redundant, exceptional, unneeded, (adv) especially,

- above, (n) supplement, excess, plus, supernumerary, addendum, addition, duplicate, (v) additive; antonyms (adj) basic, (n) lack, 6. subsidiary; synonyms (n) underling, (adj) subservient, minor, adjunct, appurtenant, assistant, incidental, inferior, acceding, adjuvant, (v) ministrant, 7. secondary; synonyms (adj) lower, derivative, indirect, junior, petty, deficient, lesser, dependent, derived, alternate, side, (n) proxy, deputy, delegate, representative; antonyms (adj) central, chief, direct, fundamental, major, primary, 8. second; synonyms (n) instant, moment, flash, jiffy, minute, sec, time, wink, bit, countenance, third, (v) back, endorse, support, (adj) latter; antonym (adj) first, 9. odd; synonyms (adj) grotesque, funny, abnormal, curious, droll, eccentric, extraordinary, singular, strange, chance, novel, anomalous, bizarre, fantastic, individual; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, even, typical.
- додатково additionally; *synonyms* (*adv*) besides, also, too, furthermore, moreover, again, more, along, and, still, (*adj*) likewise.
- додатний positive; synonyms (adj) absolute, certain, affirmative, confident, decisive, definite, direct, explicit, favorable, incontrovertible, peremptory, plus, sure, advantageous, (n) actual; antonyms (adj) negative, derogatory, uncertain, unsure, pessimistic, sad.
- додаток 1. supplement; synonyms (n) accessory, annex, accompaniment, addendum, addition, adjunct, appendix, increment, continuation, appendage, appurtenance, (v) add, append, affix, (adj) complement; antonym (v) diminish, 2. appendix; synonym (v) supplement, 3. addition; synonyms (n) accession, extension, increase, accretion, afterthought, attachment, augmentation, extra, gain, acquisition, amplification, annexation, enlargement, growth, (prep) accumulation; antonyms (n) subtraction, removal, estimation, 4. enclosure; synonyms (n) coop, cage, barrier, enclosing, pen, hedge, sty, case, envelopment, fencing, inclosure, insert, railing, ring, chamber.
- ДОДЕРЖУВАТИ respect (поважати); synonyms (n) honor, esteem, homage, worship, heed, notice, account, consideration, deference, (v) regard, observe, admire, appreciate, estimation, keep; antonyms (n) cheek, insolence, impudence, (v) disrespect, scorn, despise, dishonor, disregard, humiliate.
- додому home; *synonyms* (n) fireside, abode, domicile, house, base, building, dwelling, family, habitation, household, place, residence, shelter, asylum, (adj) domestic.
- д03a dose; synonyms (n) potion, dosage, draught, medicine, share, batch, doctor, allotment, measure, portion, shot, contingent, dividend, pill, (v) drug.
- дозвіл 1. permission; synonyms (n) consent, license, permit, approval, authority, leave, liberty, licence, agreement, assent, authorization, dispensation, pass, sanction, (v) allowance; antonym (n) refusal, 2. allowance; synonyms (n) allotment, admission, discount, quota, tolerance, maintenance, abatement, acknowledgment, adjustment, allocation, compensation, concession, deduction, fee, grant, 3. consent; synonyms (n) accord, acquiescence, consensus, approbation, compliance, concurrence, acceptance, (v)

- agree, approve, concur, accede, accept, acquiesce, admit, (adj) allow; antonyms (n) opposition, (v) disagree, refuse, veto, 4. permit; synonyms (v) give, let, bear, endure, have, legalize, enable, suffer, tolerate, warrant, authorize, countenance, empower, (n) permission, charter; antonyms (v) forbid, ban, prevent, prohibit, stop, 5. leave; synonyms (v) depart, forsake, go, abandon, desert, quit, escape, flee, lead, lay, bequeath, (n) furlough, holiday, break, (adj) empty; antonyms (v) arrive, enter, stay, remain, approach, change, come.
- дозвілля leisure; *synonyms* (n) ease, idleness, convenience, vacation, amusement, opportunity, pastime, recreation, relaxation, repose, respite, rest, (*adj*) idle; *antonym* (n) work.
- **дозволений** permitted; *synonyms* (*adj*) allowed, permissible, allowable, admissible, lawful, free.
- дозволити 1. allow; synonyms (v) acknowledge, accord, agree, give, grant, permit, accede, acquiesce, accept, afford, authorize, bear, consent, enable, (adj) admit; antonyms (v) forbid, prohibit, deny, reject, 2. permit; synonyms (v) allow, license, leave, let, endure, have, assent, legalize, sanction, suffer, tolerate, (n) licence, pass, permission, charter; antonyms (v) ban, prevent, stop.
- дозволяти 1. allow; synonyms (v) acknowledge, accord, agree, give, grant, permit, accede, acquiesce, accept, afford, authorize, bear, consent, enable, (adj) admit; antonyms (v) forbid, prohibit, deny, reject, 2. permit; synonyms (v) allow, license, leave, let, endure, have, assent, legalize, sanction, suffer, tolerate, (n) licence, pass, permission, charter; antonyms (v) ban, prevent, stop, 3. let; synonyms (v) hire, lease, rent, cause, countenance, demise, get, entitle, trust, engage, induce, (n) check, hindrance, impediment, obstacle, 4. tolerate; synonyms (v) take, abide, brook, stand, stomach, support, sustain, undergo, submit, bide, withstand, pay, swallow, digest, carry, 5. admit (допускати); synonyms (v) concede, affirm, confess, include, appreciate, welcome, accommodate, adjudge, avouch, avow, declare, hold, profess, receive, recognize; antonym (v) exclude.
- **ДОЗРІВАТИ** mature; synonyms (adj) ripe, complete, adult, aged, developed, experienced, fledged, old, perfect, (v) grow, ripen, develop, age, maturate, mellow; antonyms (adj) childish, naive, unripe, young, sophomoric, (v) immature.
- ДОЗРІЛИЙ mature; synonyms (adj) ripe, complete, adult, aged, developed, experienced, fledged, old, perfect, (v) grow, ripen, develop, age, maturate, mellow; antonyms (adj) childish, naive, unripe, young, sophomoric, (v) immature.
- ДОЗРІТИ mature; synonyms (adj) ripe, complete, adult, aged, developed, experienced, fledged, old, perfect, (v) grow, ripen, develop, age, maturate, mellow; antonyms (adj) childish, naive, unripe, young, sophomoric, (v) immature.
- AO3yBatu 1. dose; synonyms (n) potion, dosage, draught, medicine, share, batch, doctor, allotment, measure, portion, shot, contingent, dividend, pill, (v) drug, 2. proportion; synonyms (n) balance, percentage, degree, ratio, slice, dimension, equilibrium, equipoise, fraction, part, rate, correspondence, ration, (v) scale, coordinate.

- Д**ОЇТИ** milk (молоко); synonyms (v) exploit, squeeze, drain, tap, anodyne, balm, bleed, (adj) albumen, chalk, glair, gluten.
- **ДΟΚ** dock; *synonyms* (n) bob, berth, bobtail, harbor, pier, quay, sorrel, wharf, marina, dockage, (v) clip, cut, pare, curtail, deprive; *antonym* (v) undock.
- доказ 1. proof; synonyms (n) confirmation, demonstration, probation, argument, authentication, evidence, sign, substantiation, validation, verification, experiment, indication, essay, criterion, establishment, 2. testimony; synonyms (n) attestation, declaration, proof, testimonial, statement, affidavit, affirmation. profession, deposition, certificate, avowal, attest, authority, (v) witness, record, 3. witness; synonyms (n) spectator, testimony, bystander, eyewitness, onlooker, observer, testifier, beholder, testify, attestant, (v) observe, notice, see, view, watch; antonym (n) participant, 4. evidence; synonyms (n) mark, data, clue, fact, (v) display, demonstrate, certify, manifest, denote, establish, exhibit, indicate, prove, show, tell, 5. argument; synonyms (n) controversy, debate, matter, reason, hassle, altercation, arguing, brawl, clash, contention, difference, disagreement, discussion, fight, justification; *antonyms* (n) agreement, harmony, **6**. clue; synonyms (n) clew, cue, hint, signal, suggestion, guide, token, inkling, key, pointer, information, (v) tip.
- ДОКАЗАТИ prove; *synonyms* (v) demonstrate, attest, confirm, manifest, establish, evidence, examine, show, approve, assert, authenticate, check, corroborate, essay, evince; *antonym* (v) disprove.
- доказувати prove; *synonyms* (*v*) demonstrate, attest, confirm, manifest, establish, evidence, examine, show, approve, assert, authenticate, check, corroborate, essay, evince; *antonym* (*v*) disprove.
- доки while; *synonyms* (*conj*) as, whereas, although, though, (*n*) spell, time, period, moment, interval, space, bit, (*prep*) during, (*adv*) when, whilst, because.
- докладний 1. detailed; synonyms (adj) circumstantial, close, careful, accurate, delicate, elaborate, meticulous, minute, thorough, scrupulous, complete, comprehensive, elaborated, exact, exhaustive, 2. explicit; synonyms (adj) clear, distinct, unmistakable, broad, definite, direct, lucid, manifest, sharp, perspicuous, emphatic, transparent, express, obvious, plain; antonyms (adj) vague, tacit, understood, unspoken, implicit, bland, 3. minute: synonyms (n) instant, flash, iiffy, note. memorandum, moment, second, (adi) little, microscopic, atomic, diminutive, fine, infinitesimal, miniature, particular; antonyms (adj) enormous, huge, big, gigantic, 4. particular; synonyms (adj) special, fastidious, finicky, fussy, individual, detailed, certain, choosy, critical, especial, exceptional, extra, extraordinary, (n) detail, item; antonyms (adj) careless, easy, ordinary, (n) general, 5. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, correct, decent, difficult, enjoyable, precise, right; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible.
- ДОКЛАДНО 1. narrowly; *synonyms* (*adv*) barely, hardly, just, closely, straitly, strictly, exactly, carefully, accurately, precisely, intimately, personally, scantly, streite, almost; *antonym* (*adv*) generally, 2.

- particularly; *synonyms* (*adv*) especially, specially, only, chiefly, curiously, expressly, markedly, notably, peculiarly, principally, singly, very, individually, definitely, distinctly; *antonym* (*adv*) slightly.
- **ДΟΚΤΟΡ** doctor; *synonyms* (n) physician, doc, medico, (ν) cure, adulterate, attend, fix, heal, mend, remedy, repair, cook, debase, falsify, leech; *antonym* (ν) break.
- доктрина doctrine; *synonyms* (*n*) creed, belief, credo, dogma, philosophy, conviction, lesson, canon, faith, gospel, ism, principle, school, tenet.
- документ 1. document; synonyms (n) charter, deed, credentials, papers, text, writing, declaration, enclosure, (v) record, file, list, prove, report, 2. writing; synonyms (n) script, composition, lettering, print, document, autograph, paper, authorship, book, inscription, journal, style, words, correspondence, penning, 3. paper (папір); synonyms (n) article, newspaper, discourse, newsprint, certificate, essay, magazine, periodical, form, ticket, publisher, dissertation, exposition, press, theme.
- документація documentation; synonyms (n) proof, record, certificate, certification, corroboration, credential, credentials, evidence.
- долар dollar; synonyms (n) buck, greenback, note, bill, clam, dime, disme, nickel, quarter, ace, bone, certificate, cucumber, fish, frog.
- долина 1. valley; *synonyms* (*n*) ravine, dale, gully, vale, hollow, depression, gap, gorge; *antonym* (*n*) mount, 2. dale; *synonyms* (*n*) valley, glen, abyss, bottom, cocoon, basin, cave, cavern, cove, foundation, glade, groundwork, grove, lees, sediment.
- долоня palm; *synonyms* (*n*) decoration, medal, prize, thenar, victory, medallion, (*v*) hand, filch, bag, cabbage, crib, handle, nim, pilfer, rob.
- доля 1. fate; synonyms (n) destiny, chance, luck, fatality, allotment, fortune, kismet, lot, portion, accident, end, (v) doom, destine, designate, destruction, 2. fortune; synonyms (n) estate, fate, fluke, means, abundance, assets, riches, wealth, blessing, substance, affluence, prosperity, treasure, capital, hap, 3. destiny; synonyms (n) destination, weird, circumstances, 4. share; synonyms (n) piece, deal, dole, division, interest, (v) participate, allot, apportion, distribute, part, partake, dispense, divide, partition, assign; antonym (v) control, 5. lot; synonyms (n) batch, slice, bunch, circle, group, set, share, band, caboodle, cluster, collection, draw, gang, heap, mass.
- **ДΟΜΑΓΑΤИСЯ** obtain; *synonyms* (v) gain, acquire, get, have, achieve, attain, earn, accomplish, derive, effect, buy, collect, extract, find, gather; *antonym* (v) lose.
- домашній 1. domestic; synonyms (adj) home, tame, civil, familiar, household, internal, native, domesticated, family, indigenous, indoor, inland, (n) homely, maid, servant; antonyms (adj) foreign, wild, external, 2. home; synonyms (n) fireside, abode, domicile, house, base, building, dwelling, habitation, place, residence, shelter, asylum, fatherland, habitat, (adj) domestic.
- ДОМІВКА house; synonyms (n) family, home, dwelling, firm, abode, domicile, building, edifice, habitation, housing, establishment, structure, ancestry, (v) accommodate, lodge.

- **домінувати** dominate; *synonyms* (*v*) command, control, prevail, reign, rule, direct, manage, overlook, possess, predominate, crush, domineer, govern, hold, (*adj*) preponderate.
- ДОМІНУЮЧИЙ dominant; synonyms (adj) commanding, influential, leading, overriding, paramount, powerful, primary, principal, rampant, main, major, authoritative, chief, domineering, (v) prevalent; antonyms (adj) minor, submissive, subordinate.
- **ДОМОВИНА** coffin; *synonyms* (n) casket, chest, cask, hearse, urn, automobile, basket, contention, controversy, crate, strife, tomb, (v) bury.
- ДОМОВИТИСЯ agree; synonyms (v) accord, admit, acknowledge, acquiesce, adjust, accede, bargain, concord, correspond, fit, harmonize, suit, compromise, align, (n) coincide; antonyms (v) disagree, oppose, differ, argue, object, refuse, refute.
- ДОМОВЛЕНІСТЬ 1. agreement; synonyms (n) accord, acquiescence, concord, accordance, coincidence, contract, acceptance, appointment, arrangement, compliance, confirmation, conformity, correspondence, covenant, settlement; antonyms (n) disagreement, argument, conflict, discord, rejection, dispute, resistance, 2. arrangement; synonyms (n) agreement, order, adjustment, array, classification, design, distribution, method, plan, sequence, system, accommodation, composition, construction, contrivance, **3**. bargain; *synonyms* (n) deal, treaty, buy, chaffer, compact, promise, purchase, steal, transaction, (v) exchange, agree, stipulate, trade, traffic, (adj) cheap; antonym (n) rip-off, 4. understanding; synonyms (n) intellect, mind, reason, appreciation, comprehension, apprehension, bargain, judgment, sense, sympathy, grasp, insight, knowledge, (v) intelligence, discernment; antonyms (n) ignorance, bewilderment, disbelief.
- домовлятися 1. agree; synonyms (v) accord, admit, acknowledge, acquiesce, adjust, accede, bargain, concord, correspond, fit, harmonize, suit, compromise, align, (n) coincide; antonyms (v) disagree, oppose, differ, argue, object, refuse, refute, 2. arrange; synonyms (v) appoint, dress, order, set, settle, pack, adapt, agree, classify, compose, decorate, do, engineer, fix, provide; antonyms (v) disturb, disarrange, 3. appoint; synonyms (v) assign, nominate, accredit, delegate, designate, prescribe, create, choose, commission, constitute, depute, destine, elect, institute, (n) name, 4, concert: svnonvms (n) agreement, consonance, tune. performance, recital, concordance, harmony, unison, (v) arrange, contrive, manage, 5. negotiate; synonyms (v) treat, mediate, intercede, confer, discuss, arbitrate, trade, contract, barter, consult, haggle, pass, transact, transmit, hand.
- ДОН don; synonyms (n) teacher, instructor, master, preceptor, professor, academic, bigwig, coach, corypheus, crammer, director, (v) assume, wear, dress.
- ДОНИЗУ down; synonyms (adv) below, (adj) cut, dejected, depressed, downward, despondent, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, (n) feather, fur, fuzz, (v) consume, devour, drink; antonyms (adv) up, (adj) cheerful, happy, upward.

- донор donor; *synonyms* (*n*) contributor, giver, donator, presenter, bestower, source, supplier, angel, backer, benefactress, patroness, savior, (*v*) feoffer, settlor; *antonyms* (*n*) receiver, recipient.
- **ДОНОСИТИ** inform; *synonyms* (*v*) communicate, acquaint, advise, impart, announce, enlighten, tell, familiarize, explain, advertise, apprise, educate, instruct, state, warn.
- ДОНЬКА daughter; synonyms (n) girl, child, son, lass, descendant, kid, offspring, schoolgirl, spawn, fille, girlfriend, teenager, youngster.
- допитливий 1. curious; *synonyms* (*adj*) abnormal, funny, interested, odd, peculiar, strange, unusual, bizarre, extraordinary, inquiring, inquisitive, quaint, queer, quizzical, remarkable; *antonyms* (*adj*) normal, incurious, ordinary, 2. searching; *synonyms* (*v*) cutting, excruciating, consuming, corroding, racking, (*adj*) piercing, probing, acute, curious, profound, exploratory, penetrating, trenchant, explorative, inquisitory.
- **ДОПИТЛИВІСТЬ** curiosity; *synonyms* (*n*) wonder, curio, curiousness, interest, oddity, rarity, nosiness, prying, prodigy, marvel, novelty, peculiarity.
- ДОПИТУВАТИ question; synonyms (n) inquiry, challenge, demand, matter, problem, (v) doubt, query, distrust, inquire, interrogate, investigate, contest, dispute, examine, enquire; antonyms (n) certainty, (v) answer.
- допізна late (пізно); *synonyms* (*adj*) former, dead, deceased, behindhand, belated, delayed, modern, slow, tardy, dull, defunct, (*adv*) dilatory, fresh, backward, belatedly; *antonyms* (*adj*) ahead, (*adv*) early, punctually, promptly, punctual.
- доповідати 1. report; synonyms (n) description, gossip, notice, name, fame, message, narration, narrative, news, notification, recital, record, (v) account, describe, communicate; antonym (n) fact, 2. announce; synonyms (v) advertise, herald, declare, enunciate, proclaim, return, affirm, annunciate, broadcast, foretell, intimate, promulgate, publicize, publish, report.
- доповідач 1. speaker; *synonyms* (n) loudspeaker, narrator, orator, president, spokesman, conversationalist, chairman, talker, utterer, principal, 2. reporter; *synonyms* (n) newsman, commentator, correspondent, journalist, columnist, reviewer, newsperson, newswoman, (v) informant, intelligencer, authority.
- доповідь report; synonyms (n) description, gossip, notice, name, fame, message, narration, narrative, news, notification, recital, record, (v) account, describe, communicate; antonym (n) fact.
- **ДΟΠΟΒΙCΤΗ** report; *synonyms* (n) description, gossip, notice, name, fame, message, narration, narrative, news, notification, recital, record, (ν) account, describe, communicate; *antonym* (n) fact.
- доповнення addition; synonyms (n) accession, accessory, addendum, extension, increase, accretion, afterthought, annex, appendage, attachment, augmentation, complement, extra, gain, (prep) accumulation; antonyms (n) subtraction, removal, estimation
- ДОПОВНЮВАТИ 1. complete; synonyms (adj) perfect, absolute, consummate, whole, full, stark,

- accomplished, all, (v) accomplish, achieve, close, finish, execute, act, attain; antonyms (adj) incomplete, partial, unfinished, abridged, shortened, sketchy, lacking, narrow, qualified, (v) neglect, 2. supplement; synonyms (n) accessory, annex, accompaniment, addendum, addition, adjunct, appendix, increment, continuation, appendage, appurtenance, (v) add, append, affix, (adj) complement; antonym (v) diminish.
- допомагати 1. assist; synonyms (v) aid, support, abet, serve, contribute, boost, attend, avail, back, comfort, encourage, expedite, facilitate, (n) help, assistance; antonym (v) hinder, 2. aid; synonyms (n) assist, encouragement, relief, backing, care, cure, favor, hand, lift, patronage, recourse, (v) benefit, ease, minister, countenance; antonym (n) hindrance, 3. help (допомога); synonyms (v) alleviate, forward, befriend, further, amend, cooperate, correct, gain, profit, promote, (n) assistant, remedy, advantage, prompt, servant; antonyms (v) worsen, (n) detriment, 4. promote; synonyms (v) advance, advertise, develop, foster, prefer, push, dignify, elevate, enhance, exalt, improve, increase, plug, raise, arouse; antonyms (v) demote, discourage.
- допоміжний 1. subsidiary; synonyms (n) subordinate, (adi) auxiliary, subservient, ancillary, secondary, additional, minor, adjunct, appurtenant, assistant, incidental, inferior, supplemental, (v) accessory, ministrant, 2. emergency; synonyms (n) crisis, contingency, exigency, accident, need, pinch, casualty, disaster, demand, circumstance, emergence, predicament, adventure, catastrophe, (adj) extra, 3. utility; synonyms (n) use, usefulness, service, value, avail, purpose, advantage, help, helpfulness, benefit, effectiveness, expediency, profit, convenience, (adj) functional, 4. secondary; synonyms (adj) lower, derivative, indirect, junior, second, less, petty, deficient, lesser, dependent, derived, (n) proxy, deputy, delegate, representative; antonyms (adi) basic, main, central, chief, direct, fundamental, major, primary.
- **ДΟΠΟΜΟΓΑ 1.** help; *synonyms* (v) aid, assist, avail, facilitate, favor, ease, alleviate, contribute, (n) assistance, benefit, support, assistant, cure, boost, encouragement; *antonyms* (v) hinder, worsen, (n) hindrance, detriment, **2.** assistance; *synonyms* (n) relief, backing, charity, hand, help, remedy, service, advantage, lift, second, collaboration, comfort, cooperation, patronage, (v) succor, **3.** aid; *synonyms* (n) care, recourse, facility, associate, means, (v) abet, minister, serve, countenance, encourage, relieve, accommodate, improve, cooperate, advance, **4.** helping; *synonyms* (n) portion, share, plateful, part, quota, serving, (*adj*) auxiliary, **5.** relief; *synonyms* (n) consolation, relaxation, release, respite, solace, abatement, alleviation, redress, rest, amends, assuagement, break, easing, embossment, ministration.
- допускати 1. admit; synonyms (v) acknowledge, concede, accede, grant, affirm, confess, include, permit, take, appreciate, welcome, accommodate, adjudge, (n) allow, (phr) accept; antonyms (v) deny, exclude, reject, 2. allow; synonyms (v) accord, agree, give, acquiesce, afford, authorize, bear, consent, enable, endure, own, recognize, stand, (adj) admit, (n) let; antonyms (v) forbid, prohibit, 3. accept (приймати); synonyms (v) receive, abide, adopt, assume, believe, yield, approve, assent,

- espouse, have, reconcile, suffer, suppose, tolerate, (n) embrace; antonyms (v) refuse, snub, oppose, renounce, resist, **4**. suppose; synonyms (v) guess, infer, conjecture, consider, divine, estimate, imagine, presume, reckon, speculate, calculate, conceive, expect, judge, regard, **5**. tolerate; synonyms (v) brook, stomach, support, sustain, undergo, submit, bide, withstand, pay, swallow, digest, carry, go, conduct, hold.
- допустити admit (допускати); synonyms (v)
  acknowledge, concede, accede, grant, affirm, confess,
  include, permit, take, appreciate, welcome,
  accommodate, adjudge, (n) allow, (phr) accept; antonyms
  (v) deny, exclude, reject.
- **ДОПУЩЕННЯ** 1. assumption; *synonyms* (*n*) presumption, supposition, hypothesis, premise, adoption, arrogance, acceptance, belief, conclusion, conjecture, guess, idea, surmise, theory, notion, 2. admission; *synonyms* (*n*) access, acknowledgment, confession, admittance, declaration, reception, recognition, confirmation, acquiescence, affirmation, allowance, concession, entrance, entree, entry; *antonym* (*n*) denial, 3. allowance; *synonyms* (*n*) allotment, admission, discount, quota, tolerance, maintenance, abatement, adjustment, allocation, compensation, deduction, fee, grant, indulgence, leave.
- дорадчий advisory; synonyms (adj) consultative, instructive, consultatory, hortative, admonitory, clarifying, consultive, descriptive, deterrent, didactic, expounding, illuminating, illustrative, informative, prudential.
- доречний 1. relevant; *synonyms* (*adj*) appropriate, pertinent, apt, important, apposite, material, crucial, related, suitable, pat, apropos, relative, (*n*) germane, applicable, felicitous; *antonyms* (*adj*) irrelevant, unrelated, 2. apt; *synonyms* (*adj*) adroit, intelligent, good, able, adequate, convenient, dexterous, efficient, fit, ready, smart, clever, deft, disposed, expert; *antonym* (*adj*) inappropriate, 3. pat; *synonyms* (*n*) tap, knock, clap, touch, beat, rap, slap, smack, stroke, hit, fondle, (*v*) caress, dab, chuck, strike.
- доречність 1. relevance; synonyms (n) connection, cogency, importance, pertinency, suitability, significance, appropriateness, bearing, concern, relevancy, use, 2. fitness; synonyms (n) ability, adequacy, aptness, capability, propriety, correspondence, competence, competence, convenience, correctness, fittingness, health, qualification, congruity, appositeness; antonyms (n) unsuitability, inability, unfitness.
- дорівнювати equal; synonyms (adj) agree, comparable, adequate, balanced, commensurate, equivalent, (v) match, compare, correspond, even, parallel, rival, equalize, (n) compeer, peer; antonyms (adj) unequal, different, repressive, disproportionate, inconsistent, uneven, unlike, (v) differ.
- ДОРІЖКА рath; *synonyms* (n) course, direction, way, highway, line, orbit, track, lane, means, alley, avenue, corridor, itinerary, route, (v) passage.
- дорога 1. way (шлях); synonyms (n) course, method, path, passage, road, rotte, track, custom, direction, form, manner, means, style, fashion, habit, 2. road; synonyms (n) way, avenue, highway, line, approach, roadway, street, thoroughfare, walk, access, artery, itinerary,

- pathway, trail, (adj) traveling, 3. avenue; synonyms (n) channel, boulevard, lane, outlet.
- дорогий 1. costly; synonyms (adj) expensive, dear, precious, valuable, extravagant, high, luxurious, pricey, rich, sumptuous, invaluable, beloved, plush, priceless, pricy; antonyms (adj) cheap, worthless, 2. dear; synonyms (adj) close, costly, lovely, near, adorable, affectionate, cherished, familiar, intimate, loved, pet, (n) darling, love, honey, sweetheart, 3. precious; synonyms (adj) golden, choice, inestimable, exquisite, cute, noble, good, goodly, sweet, valued, worthy, delicate, gorgeous, (adv) extremely, preciously, 4. expensive; synonyms (adj) lavish, overpriced, exclusive, fine, exorbitant, splendid; antonyms (adj) inexpensive, reasonable, 5. darling; synonyms (adj) pretty, idol, (n) favorite, deary, angel, treasure, duck, ducky, favourite, flame, lover.
- **дорого** dear; synonyms (adj) beloved, close, costly, expensive, lovely, precious, near, adorable, affectionate, cherished, familiar, high, (n) darling, love, honey; antonyms (adj) cheap, worthless.
- дорогоцінний precious; synonyms (adj) dear, beloved, cherished, costly, valuable, invaluable, expensive, golden, choice, inestimable, exquisite, cute, rich, noble, (n) darling; antonym (adj) worthless.
- дорожити value (вартість); synonyms (n) merit, cost, appraise, importance, rate, consequence, (v) price, appreciate, assess, esteem, evaluate, cherish, estimate, measure, prize; antonyms (n) disadvantage, futility, uselessness, insignificance.
- дорослий 1. adult; synonyms (adj) big, full-grown, mature, elder, developed, grown, older, ripe, responsible, (n) grownup; antonyms (adj) immature, teenage, (n) adolescent, child, juvenile, teenager, infant, 2. big (великий); synonyms (adj) ample, major, heavy, important, significant, thick, sturdy, generous, adult, bad, burly, considerable, great, hefty, (adv) large; antonyms (adj) little, puny, (adv) small, (syn) tiny.
- **доручати 1.** commit; *synonyms* (ν) commend, assign, charge, consign, apply, confide, dedicate, entrust, submit, deliver, devote, give, intrust, leave, send, **2**. charge; *synonyms* (n) accusation, burden, care, command, commission, bill, tax, accusal, assail, (ν) accuse, blame, attack, bid, load, arraign; *antonyms* (ν) request, absolve, retreat.
- доручення 1. mission; synonyms (n) commission, delegation, deputation, job, assignment, charge, duty, goal, legation, chore, delegacy, errand, task, function, business, 2. commission; synonyms (n) board, mission, mandate, warrant, committee, work, (v) assign, accredit, designate, appoint, authorize, delegate, empower, place, nominate, 3. message; synonyms (n) communication, meaning, information, letter, dispatch, lesson, note, significance, statement, word, direction, memorandum, advice, epistle, import.
- **Досада** nuisance; *synonyms* (*n*) annoyance, bother, harassment, hassle, inconvenience, irritation, pain, pest, mischief, bore, botheration, disturbance, plague, trouble, drawback; *antonym* (*n*) pleasure.
- досвід experience; *synonyms* (n) event, episode, happening, (v) encounter, endure, suffer, examine, enjoy,

- feel, have, know, live, meet, receive, (adj) see; antonym (n) inexperience.
- ДОСВІДЧЕНИЙ 1. expert; synonyms (adj) adept, adroit, dexterous, skillful, able, clever, experienced, accomplished, ace, apt, (n) professional, proficient, critic, authority, connoisseur; antonyms (adj) unskilled, inept, inferior, untrained, (n) amateur, beginner, 2. experienced; synonyms (adj) capable, educated, competent, expert, knowledgeable, old, practiced, sophisticated, trained, conversant, informed, learned, mature, skilled, versed; antonyms (adj) inexperienced, naive, immature, 3. sophisticated; synonyms (adj) complicated, refined, complex, cultured, urbane, involved, intricate, advanced, polished, suave, cosmopolitan, cultivated, elaborate, elegant, knowing; antonyms (adj) unsophisticated, coarse, insular, simple, 4. skilled; synonyms (adj) gifted, deft, perfect, cunning, efficient, masterly, handy, crack, masterful, consummate, fit, qualified, talented, veteran; antonym (adj) incompetent.
- досить 1. enough; synonyms (adv) rather, plenty, amply, adequately, satisfaction, fairly, fully, (n) adequacy, fill, sufficiency, (adj) ample, sufficient, adequate, competent, decent; antonym (adj) inadequate, 2. fairly; synonyms (adv) completely, moderately, somewhat, clean, equitably, fair, justly, passably, pretty, quite, reasonably, enough, middling, relatively, slightly; antonyms (adv) unfairly, extremely, unjustly, 3. rather; synonyms (adv) considerably, instead, kinda, preferably, comparatively, sooner, 4. pretty; synonyms (adv) very, jolly, (adj) beautiful, graceful, lovely, attractive, charming, handsome, good-looking, picturesque, dainty, cute, elegant, fine, (n) nice; antonym (adj) ugly, 5. sufficiently; synonyms (adv) richly, abundantly, copiously, entirely, full, largely, maturely, perfectly, plenteously, acceptably, effectively, tolerably, (n) sufficience; antonym (adv) insufficiently.
- досі 1. yet; synonyms (adv) however, but, notwithstanding, even, nonetheless, though, besides, further, hitherto, eventually, unless, always, (conj) nevertheless, (n) already, (v) still, 2. hitherto; synonyms (adv) heretofore, yet, before, previously, withal, 3. still; synonyms (adj) calm, pacify, peaceful, silence, quiescent, serene, silent, appease, (n) hush, (v) quiet, assuage, compose, lull, soothe, allay; antonyms (adj) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, (n) noisy.
- досконалий perfect; synonyms (adj) consummate, complete, exact, utter, entire, faultless, thorough, exquisite, integral, blameless, clean, (v) achieve, accomplish, (n) absolute, full; antonyms (adj) imperfect, faulty, flawed.
- досконалість 1. excellence; synonyms (n) distinction, eminence, advantage, goodness, superiority, virtue, greatness, quality, value, (adj) merit, worth, desert, mastery; antonym (n) inferiority, 2. perfection; synonyms (n) excellence, consummation, ideal, maturity, paragon, completeness, completion, finish, crown, development, flawlessness, ripeness, integrity, complete, perfect; antonym (n) imperfection.
- ДОСКОНАЛО perfectly; *synonyms* (*adv*) entirely, completely, fully, absolutely, thoroughly, utterly,

- wholly, dead, flawlessly, quite, totally, altogether, clean, right, exactly; *antonyms* (adv) badly, imperfectly.
- дослід experiment; *synonyms* (n) test, attempt, essay, trial, tentative, try, examination, taste, experience, experimentation, (v) examine, venture, check.
- дослідження 1. exploration; synonyms (n) examination, search, discovery, expedition, inquiry, investigation, probe, quest, inspection, reconnaissance, research, scrutiny, study, survey, hunt, 2. research; synonyms (n) exploration, inquisition, question, enquiry, pursuit, learning, query, (v) check, explore, examine, investigate, experiment, inspect, test, dig, 3. investigation; synonyms (n) analysis, inquest, review, investigating, trial, audit, interrogation, inquire, indagation, surveillance, 4. inquiry; synonyms (n) hearing, demand, request, application, doubt.
- досліджувати 1. investigate; synonyms (v) examine, explore, inquire, inspect, search, check, research, ask, hunt, analyze, enquire, interrogate, scrutinize, study, test, 2. explore; synonyms (v) delve, discover, investigate, plumb, probe, prospect, view, do, detect, spy, feel, ransack, rummage, (n) reconnoiter, scan, 3. examine; synonyms (v) assay, audit, consider, overhaul, try, control, survey, ascertain, contemplate, compare, canvass, essay, quiz, review, appraise, 4. analyse; synonyms (v) dissect, psychoanalyse, psychoanalyze, canvas, collapse, crumble, crumple, crush, die, fail, go, learn, meditate, poll, (n) analyser, 5. search; synonyms (n) pursuit, examination, exploration, inquiry, inspection, hunting, investigation, quest, analysis, (v) grope, pry, forage, look, nose, rake, **6**. research; synonyms (n) inquisition, question, enquiry, learning, query, (v) experiment, dig.
- **ДОСЛІДИТИ** investigate; *synonyms* (v) examine, explore, inquire, inspect, search, check, research, ask, hunt, analyze, enquire, interrogate, scrutinize, study, test
- дослідник researcher; synonyms (n) investigator, academic, associate, beneficiary, detective, member, canvasser, instructor, intellectual, pollster, teacher, tec.
- ДОСТАВИТИ deliver; synonyms (v) consign, bear, carry, rescue, save, abandon, bring, liberate, pronounce, render, return, send, utter, drop, acquit.
- ДОСТАВКА delivery; synonyms (n) childbirth, birth, consignment, discharge, rescue, communication, confinement, deliverance, distribution, elocution, issue, surrender, articulation, (ν) address, parturition; antonyms (n) death, dispatch.
- доставляти 1. deliver; *synonyms* (*v*) consign, bear, carry, rescue, save, abandon, bring, liberate, pronounce, render, return, send, utter, drop, acquit, 2. bring (приносити); *synonyms* (*v*) convey, fetch, conduct, get, put, take, reduce, afford, bestow, deliver, land, move, provide, attract, beget, 3. supply; *synonyms* (*n*) provision, hoard, issue, (*v*) furnish, stock, fill, store, feed, offer, cater, contribute, equip, give, outfit, produce.
- достатній 1. sufficient; synonyms (adj) adequate, enough, satisfactory, commensurate, competent, proper, good, acceptable, ample, full, plenty, due, abundant, comfortable, decent; antonyms (adj) inadequate, insufficient, 2. enough; synonyms (adv) rather, amply,

- adequately, satisfaction, fairly, fully, only, sufficiently, considering, (n) adequacy, fill, sufficiency, (adj) sufficient, (int) basta, 3. ample; synonyms (adj) big, broad, copious, large, plentiful, affluent, considerable, heavy, liberal, rich, roomy, sizable, spacious, voluminous, bountiful; antonyms (adj) small, meager, scarce, 4. adequate; synonyms (adj) right, condign, effectual, passable, agreeable, equal, fair, fit, qualified, able, appropriate, capable, corresponding, efficient, proportionate; antonym (adj) unsatisfactory, 5. satisfactory; synonyms (adj) tolerable, presentable, pleasing, respectable, pleasant, reasonable, suitable, well, average; antonym (adj) unacceptable.
- **достатньо 1.** enough; *synonyms* (adv) rather, plenty, amply, adequately, satisfaction, fairly, fully, (n) adequacy, fill, sufficiency, (adj) ample, sufficient, adequate, competent, decent; *antonym* (adj) inadequate, 2. sufficiently; *synonyms* (adv) enough, quite, completely, richly, abundantly, copiously, entirely, full, largely, maturely, perfectly, plenteously, acceptably, effectively, (n) sufficience; *antonym* (adv) insufficiently.
- **достаток 1**. abundance; *synonyms* (*n*) wealth, amplitude, exuberance, plenitude, profusion, richness, store, treasure, affluence, breadth, copiousness, enough, fertility, (*adj*) plenty, riches; *antonyms* (*n*) dearth, scarcity, aridity, insufficiency, lack, shortage, **2**. wealth; *synonyms* (*n*) abundance, opulence, capital, fortune, property, mammon, resources, assets, excess, prosperity, possession, cornucopia, overabundance, (*v*) money, gold; *antonyms* (*n*) poverty, penury, **3**. fertility; *synonyms* (*n*) fecundity, birthrate, productivity, uberty, natality, prolificacy; *antonyms* (*n*) sterility, infertility, **4**. plenty; *synonyms* (*n*) many, much, plenteousness, galore, flood, multitude, heap, lot, plentifulness, plentitude, fullness, (*adj*) adequate, ample, plentiful, sufficient; *antonyms* (*n*) few, (*addi*) insufficient.
- ДОСТОВІРНИЙ authentic; synonyms (adj) actual, genuine, accurate, real, right, straight, believable, true, trustworthy, valid, unfeigned, unsophisticated, credible, factual, (v) authoritative; antonyms (adj) bogus, fake,
- ¿QOCTOÏHCTBO merit; synonyms (n) worth, credit, desert, virtue, goodness, quality, significance, value, dignity, distinction, due, (v) deserve, earn, rate, (adj) excellence.
- достойний worthy; synonyms (adj) noble, estimable, good, meritorious, respectable, valuable, deserving, honorable, suitable, virtuous, worthwhile, admirable, desirable, (n) celebrity, notable; antonym (adj) unworthy.
- **доступ 1.** access; *synonyms* (*n*) admission, approach, entrance, entry, admittance, entree, gate, attack, doorway, entryway, fit, opening, outburst, passage, (*v*) enter; *antonym* (*n*) exit, **2.** admission; *synonyms* (*n*) acceptance, access, acknowledgment, confession, declaration, reception, recognition, confirmation, acquiescence, affirmation, allowance, concession, inclusion, introduction, pass; *antonym* (*n*) denial, **3.** entrance; *synonyms* (*n*) arrival, door, threshold, accession, induction, advent, appearance, (*v*) enchant, captivate, charm, bewitch, enrapture, fascinate, enthrall, delight; *antonyms* (*n*) departure, (*v*) bore.

- доступний 1. accessible; synonyms (adj) approachable, available, open, convenient, amenable, easy, handy, obtainable, ready, sociable, (v) weak; antonyms (adj) inaccessible, out-of-the-way, unavailable, 2. available; synonyms (adj) accessible, free, possible, attainable, uncommitted, usable, vacant, valid, (adv) present, (n) applicable; antonyms (adj) occupied, suppressed, concealed, engaged.
- **досягати 1.** achieve; *synonyms* (ν) accomplish, reach, complete, do, effect, execute, gain, perform, acquire, act, attain, fulfill, get, make, manage; *antonym* (ν) lose, **2**. reach; *synonyms* (ν) range, overtake, obtain, achieve, extend, pass, go, touch, equal, form, (n) fetch, compass, stretch, extent, area, **3**. acquire; *synonyms* (ν) find, take, accept, buy, collect, contract, earn, purchase, receive, assume, catch, derive, develop, harvest, have; *antonym* (ν) sell, **4**. obtain; *synonyms* (ν) extract, gather, prevail, procure, extort, carry, draw, enlist, hold, incur, reap, secure, stand, win, can.
- досягнення 1. attainment; synonyms (n) accomplishment, acquirement, achievement, gain, accession, completion, fulfillment, success, performance, fruition, obtainment, realization, skill, (v) acquisition; antonym (n) failure, 2. achievement; synonyms (n) deed, execution, exploit, act, action, attainment, victory, effort, implementation, discharge, end, (adj) feat, 3. arrival (πρμόγττя); synonyms (n) appearance, advent, entrance, incoming, newcomer, return, arriver, comer, reaching, homecoming; antonyms (n) departure, exit, leaving, 4. progress; synonyms (n) headway, improvement, furtherance, betterment, course, advancement, development, growth, increase, (v) advance, proceed, continue, develop, go, move; antonyms (n) decline, deterioration, (v) regress.
- ДΟСЯГТИ 1. achieve; synonyms (v) accomplish, reach, complete, do, effect, execute, gain, perform, acquire, act, attain, fulfill, get, make, manage; antonym (v) lose, 2. reach; synonyms (v) range, overtake, obtain, achieve, extend, pass, go, touch, equal, form, (n) fetch, compass, stretch, extent, area.
- ДОСЯЖНИЙ 1. accessible; synonyms (adj) approachable, available, open, convenient, amenable, easy, handy, obtainable, ready, sociable, (v) weak; antonyms (adj) inaccessible, out-of-the-way, unavailable, 2. available; synonyms (adj) accessible, free, possible, attainable, uncommitted, usable, vacant, valid, (adv) present, (n) applicable; antonyms (adj) occupied, suppressed, concealed, engaged.
- ДОСЯЖНІСТЬ reach; *synonyms* (v) range, overtake, obtain, achieve, attain, extend, get, make, pass, accomplish, (n) fetch, compass, stretch, extent, gain.
- **дотація 1.** grant; synonyms (n) concession, donation, permit, (v) give, allow, award, bestow, admit, afford, concede, confer, gift, acknowledge, accord, boon; antonyms (v) deny, reject, 2. subsidy; synonyms (n) grant, aid, allowance, backing, support, endowment, (v) contribution, subscription.
- дотеп joke (жарт); *synonyms* (n) jest, banter, hoax, fun, caper, gag, game, quip, antic, farce, humor, jape, jocularity, pleasantry, (v) chaff; *antonym* (n) tragedy.

- ДОТЕПНИЙ sharp; synonyms (adj) acute, bitter, intelligent, acid, acrid, harsh, incisive, intense, penetrating, piercing, pointed, pungent, quick, (n) keen, (v) biting; antonyms (adj) blunt, dull, mild, gentle, rounded, sweet, bland, blurred, naive, round, smooth.
- дотепник wit; *synonyms* (*n*) humor, wag, humorist, satire, repartee, brain, mentality, sense, sagacity, nous, humour, intelligence, joker, mind, (*adj*) irony; *antonym* (*n*) tragedy.
- дотепність wit; *synonyms* (*n*) humor, wag, humorist, satire, repartee, brain, mentality, sense, sagacity, nous, humour, intelligence, joker, mind, (*adj*) irony; *antonym* (*n*) tragedy.
- дотик 1. touch; *synonyms* (*n*) feel, tinge, feeling, hint, (*v*) affect, contact, hit, border, adjoin, strike, stroke, regard, brush, concern, handle, 2. touching; *synonyms* (*v*) affecting, sad, (*adj*) moving, poignant, pathetic, pitiful, adjacent, adjoining, emotional, contiguous, near, impressive, (*prep*) concerning, about, (*n*) touch, 3. tip; *synonyms* (*n*) top, peak, point, pinnacle, apex, bribe, clue, crown, gratuity, suggestion, (*v*) incline, tilt, dump, lean, slant.
- **доторкатися** touch; *synonyms* (*n*) feel, tinge, feeling, hint, (*v*) affect, contact, hit, border, adjoin, strike, stroke, regard, brush, concern, handle.
- ДОТРИМУВАТИСЯ follow; synonyms (v) chase, pursue, adhere, adopt, accompany, comprehend, continue, ensue, grasp, hunt, realize, succeed, track, emulate, (adj) catch; antonyms (v) precede, guide, head, lead.
- **ДОТЯГУВАТИСЯ** reach; *synonyms* (v) range, overtake, obtain, achieve, attain, extend, get, make, pass, accomplish, (n) fetch, compass, stretch, extent, gain.
- **QOXIQ 1.** revenue; *synonyms* (n) income, receipts, proceeds, profit, earnings, gain, interest, return, yield, gate, returns, incomings, resources, takings, taxation, **2**. return; *synonyms* (n) pay, recompense, refund, restitution, (v) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer, reinstate, reply, requite; *antonyms* (n) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (v) keep, **3**. yield; *synonyms* (n) produce, give, output, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford, bear, consent; *antonyms* (v) resist, persevere.
- ДОХОДИТИ 1. come (приходити); synonyms (v) approach, become, aggregate, appear, arise, arrive, fall, befall, amount, descend, get, go, hail, number, originate; antonym (v) leave, 2. reach; synonyms (v) range, overtake, obtain, achieve, attain, extend, make, pass, accomplish, touch, (n) fetch, compass, stretch, extent, gain.
- **доцільний** advisable; *synonyms* (*adj*) desirable, expedient, advantageous, suitable, fitting, prudent, sensible, sound; *antonym* (*adj*) inadvisable.
- дочка 1. daughter; *synonyms* (n) girl, child, son, lass, descendant, kid, offspring, schoolgirl, spawn, fille, girlfriend, teenager, youngster, 2. child (дитина); *synonyms* (n) baby, boy, babe, bairn, brat, infant, juvenile, minor, toddler, tot, innocent, imp, daughter, individual, nestling; *antonym* (n) adult.

- дошка 1. board; synonyms (n) council, bench, meal, panel, table, office, sign, commission, committee, court, embark, plank, (v) keep, lodge, accommodate; antonym (v) disembark, 2. table (стіл); synonyms (n) board, chart, schedule, stand, list, plateau, console, platen, (v) defer, postpone, shelve, slate, tablet, delay, (adj) plate.
- дощ rain; *synonyms* (n) precipitation, wet, pelting, flow, rainfall, rainwater, abound, exuberate, mist, (v) pour, stream, hail, precipitate, shower, condense.
- **драбина** ladder; *synonyms* (*n*) scale, run, steps, washboard, discharge, (*v*) bleed, bunk, campaign, carry, consort, course, draw, endure, escape, execute.
- ДРАГЛІ jelly; synonyms (n) gel, conserve, jam, gelatin, preserves, (v) jellify, jell.
- дракон dragon; synonyms (n) shrew, calculus, drake, earthdrake, firedrake, monster, tartar, (adj) wyvern, cockatrice, madcap, scold, tiger, fury, kraken, roc.
- драма drama; *synonyms* (*n*) play, show, tragedy, performance, spectacle, theater.
- драматичний dramatic; synonyms (adj) spectacular, theatrical, impressive, scenic, exciting, sensational, striking, sudden, thespian; antonyms (adj) gradual, undramatic
- драматично dramatically; *synonyms* (*adv*) vividly, amazingly, desperately, enormously, fabulously, hugely, meaningfully, outstandingly, stunningly, astonishingly, emotionally, marvelously, sensitively, wonderfully.
- ДРАНИЙ ragged; synonyms (adj) seedy, threadbare, worn, hoarse, jagged, scruffy, torn, dilapidated, rugged, shaggy, tattered, unkempt, (n) shabby, harsh, rough; antonyms (adj) pristine, smart, elegant.
- ДРАТІВЛИВИЙ impatient; synonyms (adj) eager, hasty, anxious, petulant, fidgety, keen, edgy, quick, avid, enthusiastic, impetuous, irritable, restive, restless, testy; antonyms (adj) patient, enduring.
- ДРАТІВНИЙ trying; synonyms (adj) difficult, arduous, hard, taxing, annoying, bothersome, demanding, rugged, severe, thorny, tiresome, tough, painful, troublesome, irritating; antonyms (adj) easy, rewarding.
- ДРАТУВАТИ gall; synonyms (n) anger, bitterness, cheek, audacity, acerbity, acrimony, cheekiness, crust, freshness, grate, (v) annoy, chafe, fret, irk, irritate.
- ДРЕВНІЙ 1. ancient; synonyms (adj) aged, old, antiquated, obsolete, former, past, antique, archaic, bygone, hoary, primitive, olden, antediluvian, dated, (n) elder; antonym (adj) modern, 2. antique; synonyms (adj) ancient, antiquarian, musty, outmoded, quaint, outdated, demode, old-fashioned, passe, (n) relic, antiquity, (v) antiquate; antonym (n) new.
- дрейф drift; *synonyms* (n) stream, current, course, tendency, tone, bearing, design, gist, (v) aim, blow, float, ramble, cast, glide, (adj) flow.
- дренаж 1. drainage; synonyms (n) drain, drive, emanation, tapping, hydrography, (adj) arefaction, dephlegmation, 2. drain; synonyms (n) ditch, culvert, dike, channel, sewer, (v) deplete, waste, exhaust, bleed, leak, consume, finish, sap, (adj) cloaca, dissipate; antonym (v) bolster.
- **ДРЕСИРОВАНИЙ** trained; *synonyms* (adj) qualified, experienced, skilled, capable, competent, expert,

- accustomed, educated, able, efficient, fit, fitted, professional, proficient, skillful; *antonyms* (*adj*) untrained, inexpert, untaught, untutored.
- ДРЕСИРУВАННЯ education (освіта); synonyms (n) training, discipline, instruction, teaching, breeding, background, culture, enlightenment, knowledge, learning, nurture, pedagogy, schooling, literacy, tuition.
- **ДРИЛЬ** drill; *synonyms* (*n*) exercise, discipline, practice, auger, borer, rehearsal, gimlet, (*v*) bore, coach, educate, inculcate, instruct, perforate, pierce, tap.
- ДРІБ fraction; synonyms (n) divide, part, segment, bit, division, piece, proportion, section, share, faction, cut, fragment, portion, ratio, (adj) constituent.
- дрібний 1. small; synonyms (adj) little, minute, narrow, fine, inadequate, insignificant, low, minor, petty, slight, light, remote, cramped, young, limited; antonyms (adj) bulky, colossal, considerable, enormous, extra-large, great, huge, sizeable, giant, major, (syn) big, large, 2. fine; synonyms (adj) delicate, agreeable, dainty, brave, capital, elegant, excellent, nice, thin, delightful, acute, admirable, alright, (n) penalty, (v) punish; antonyms (adj) poor, thick, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, wide, 3. minute; synonyms (n) instant, flash, jiffy, note, memorandum, moment, second, (adj) microscopic, atomic, careful, circumstantial, diminutive, elaborate, infinitesimal, miniature; antonym (adj) gigantic, 4. little; synonyms (adj) small, brief, short, some, tiny, exiguous, baby, bantam, contemptible, fiddling, humble, inconsiderable, inferior, (v) dash, bit; antonym (adj) important.
- дріт wire; *synonyms* (n) cable, telegram, line, rope, cord, string, thread, flex, guy, halser, hawser, marconigram, moorings, (v) telegraph, electrify.
- **ДРОБИТИ** mill; *synonyms* (*n*) grind, factory, grinder, manufactory, machine, plant, engine, gin, notch, shop, implement, (*v*) crush, pulverize, spar, (*adj*) cent.
- **ДРОБЛЕННЯ** breaking; *synonyms* (n) break, breach, breakage, violation, contravention, infringement; *antonym* (n) observance.
- дрова wood; *synonyms* (*n*) forest, timber, woods, tree, lumber, coppice, jungle.
- друг friend; *synonyms* (n) fellow, acquaintance, ally, colleague, crony, advocate, assistant, booster, buddy, mate, connection, wellwisher, (adj) associate, companion, comrade; *antonyms* (n) enemy, foe, stranger, rival.
- другий 1. second; synonyms (n) instant, moment, flash, jiffy, minute, sec, (v) back, endorse, support, encourage, forward, help, (adj) latter, further, (pron) additional; antonym (adj) first, 2. other; synonyms (adj) another, different, extra, more, new, second, distinct, dissimilar, fresh, else, opposite, added; antonym (adj) same.
- другорядний 1. secondary; *synonyms* (*adj*) inferior, lower, minor, subordinate, ancillary, derivative, incidental, auxiliary, indirect, junior, second, less, petty, deficient, (*n*) proxy; *antonyms* (*adj*) basic, main, central, chief, direct, fundamental, major, primary, 2. minor; *synonyms* (*adj*) little, insignificant, lesser, small, inconsequential, marginal, negligible, secondary, slight, trivial, unimportant, humble, (*n*) child, juvenile,

- youngster; *antonyms* (*adj*) important, significant, leading, overriding, superseding, serious, considerable, extensive, greater, senior.
- дружба 1. friendship; *synonyms* (n) fellowship, association, affection, familiarity, amity, companionship, company, friendliness, intimacy, attachment, concord, comradeship, love, relationship, acquaintance; *antonyms* (n) enmity, hostility, 2. association; *synonyms* (n) affiliation, alliance, connection, assembly, affinity, link, partnership, society, syndicate, congress, meeting, band, brotherhood, club, (v) assemblage.
- ДРУЖЕЛЮБНИЙ friendly; synonyms (adj) amiable, favorable, affectionate, amicable, benevolent, companionable, convivial, decent, good-natured, kind, complaisant, approachable, accommodating, affable, close; antonyms (adj) hostile, unfriendly, aggressive, aloof, disagreeable, distant, formal, bad-tempered, belligerent, curt, frosty, reserved.
- ДРУЖЕЛЮБНІСТЬ friendship (дружба); synonyms (n) fellowship, association, affection, familiarity, amity, companionship, company, friendliness, intimacy, attachment, concord, comradeship, love, relationship, acquaintance; antonyms (n) enmity, hostility.
- дружина 1. wife; *synonyms* (*n*) matron, missis, partner, spouse, consort, helpmate, lady, woman, mistress, concubine, mother, sweetheart, bride, companion, helpmeet; *antonym* (*n*) husband, 2. spouse; *synonyms* (*n*) wife, man, mate, match, (*v*) neogamist.
- Дружний united; synonyms (adj) joined, joint, combined, cooperative, connected, allied, mutual, concerted, mixed, common, conjunctive, undivided, conjunct, unanimous, (v) consolidated; antonyms (adj) individual, separate, divided.
- дружній friendly; synonyms (adj) amiable, favorable, affectionate, amicable, benevolent, companionable, convivial, decent, good-natured, kind, complaisant, approachable, accommodating, affable, close; antonyms (adj) hostile, unfriendly, aggressive, aloof, disagreeable, distant, formal, bad-tempered, belligerent, curt, frosty, reserved.
- друк 1. printing; synonyms (n) impression, issue, imprint, type, duplicating, copying, belief, depression, effect, feeling, notion, opinion, picture, embossing, printmaking, 2. print; synonyms (n) mark, engraving, copy, lettering, facsimile, letterpress, reproduction, etching, brand, replica, duplicate, (v) impress, photograph, engrave, stamp, 3. press; synonyms (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- друкар printer; synonyms (n) pressman, typographer, correspondent, newspaperman, newspaperwoman, newswriter, imprinter.
- друкарня press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- ДРУКУВАННЯ 1. impression (враження); synonyms (n) belief, conception, feeling, idea, imprint, depression, image, mark, notion, dent, appearance, effect, feel, impress, influence, 2. printing; synonyms

- (n) impression, issue, type, duplicating, copying, opinion, picture, embossing, printmaking, run.
- друкувати 1. print; synonyms (n) imprint, mark, impression, engraving, copy, lettering, picture, facsimile, letterpress, reproduction, (v) impress, photograph, issue, engrave, stamp, 2. type; synonyms (n) pattern, character, kind, nature, sort, breed, category, brand, emblem, font, form, manner, print, style, (adj) model.
- **ДРУКУВАТИСЯ** publish; *synonyms* (v) declare, announce, disclose, circulate, divulge, issue, proclaim, communicate, notify, advertise, broadcast, print, promulgate, spread, expose.
- дряпати scratch; *synonyms* (*n*) score, mark, nick, scrabble, dent, abrasion, cut, groove, (*v*) graze, notch, rub, scrape, chafe, rake, grate.
- **ДРЯПАТИСЯ** scratch; *synonyms* (n) score, mark, nick, scrabble, dent, abrasion, cut, groove, (ν) graze, notch, rub, scrape, chafe, rake, grate.
- дуб oak; synonyms (adj) oaken, adamant, iron, steel.
- ДУБЛЕТ alternative; synonyms (adj) alternate, alternating, variant, (n) option, choice, preference, selection, substitute, variation.
- дублікат counterpart; *synonyms* (n) match, duplicate, twin, companion, complement, copy, double, equivalent, mate, parallel, pendant, facsimile, fellow, image, likeness.
- дуга 1. arc; synonyms (n) arch, bow, bend, crescent, curvature, spark, sweep, (v) curve, 2. arch; synonyms (n) arc, acute, dome, archway, (v) vault, (adj) shrewd, sly, wily, round, crafty, consummate, astute, chief, head, mischievous; antonym (v) straightness, 3. bow; synonyms (n) obeisance, turn, stem, (v) stoop, duck, buckle, crouch, incline, kowtow, crook, defer, kneel, nod, submit, bob.
- **дудар** piper; *synonyms* (n) bagpiper, fiddler, fifer, harper, trumpeter, pepper.
- ДУДНИК piper; *synonyms* (n) bagpiper, fiddler, fifer, harper, trumpeter, pepper.
- дуенья dragon; synonyms (n) shrew, calculus, drake, earthdrake, firedrake, monster, tartar, (adj) wyvern, cockatrice, madcap, scold, tiger, fury, kraken, roc.
- дуже 1. very; synonyms (adv) extremely, greatly, highly, really, completely, entirely, most, quite, truly, actually, too, awfully, (adj) much, identical, (n) self; antonyms (adv) abysmally, slightly, somewhat, 2. greatly; synonyms (adv) badly, considerably, exceedingly. enormously, exceptionally, very, well, dearly, abundantly, intensely, mightily, hugely, immensely, (adj) far, deeply, 3. highly; synonyms (adv) right, significantly, terribly, 4. too; synonyms (adv) also, likewise, besides, excessively, over, overly, further, furthermore, moreover, equally, and, unduly, similarly, 5. violently; synonyms (adv) fiercely, hard, vehemently, passionately, vigorously, strongly, wildly, energetically, (adj) madly, ardently, hotly; antonyms (adv) calmly, gently, **6**. well (добре); synonyms (adv) easily, thoroughly, fully, good, correctly, (adj) healthy, fit, shaft, sound, robust, (n) fountain, spring, pit, hollow, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous, 7. full; synonyms (adj) complete, absolute, abundant, broad, flush, ample, enough,

- extensive, total, detailed, comprehensive, copious, plump, (n) entire, crowded; antonyms (adj) empty, lacking, starving, hungry, sketchy, incomplete, 8. particularly; synonyms (adv) especially, specially, only, chiefly, curiously, expressly, markedly, notably, peculiarly, principally, singly, individually, definitely, distinctly, specifically.
- дужий 1. robust; synonyms (adj) healthy, firm, strong, athletic, brawny, muscular, powerful, vigorous, lusty, mighty, healthful, hearty, stout, (n) hardy, hard; antonyms (adj) weak, slight, fragile, frail, 2. violent; synonyms (adj) fierce, rough, tempestuous, intense, raging, severe, turbulent, vehement, sharp, passionate, savage, stormy, wild, (n) furious, boisterous; antonyms (adj) gentle, peaceful, calm, nonviolent, 3. hard; synonyms (adj) austere, bad, difficult, grave, arduous, callous, cruel, grueling, knotty, tough, bitter, alcoholic, backbreaking, compact, (v) acute; antonyms (adj) easy, soft, kind, merciful, simple, soggy, tender, yielding, (adv) gently, lightly, 4. strong; synonyms (adj) able, deep, stable, steady, cogent, durable, forcible, good, influential, potent, rigid, robust, secure, solid, sound; antonyms (adj) bland, delicate, faint, feeble, mild, pale, unconvincing, cowardly, diluted, dull, exhausted, flimsy, imperceptible, lightweight, tired, 5. nervous; synonyms (adj) anxious, excitable, tense, afraid, apprehensive, fearful, shy, uneasy, edgy, fidgety, neurotic, restless, timid, (adv) excited, agitated; antonyms (adj) brave,
- ДУЖКА ear (Byxo); synonyms (n) auricle, handle, hearing, lug, spike, capitulum, heed, earing, notice, crown, pinna, appreciation, discrimination, favor, (v) cultivate.
- думати 1. think; synonyms (v) consider, believe, reckon, estimate, guess, hold, imagine, muse, ponder, reflect, regard, suppose, cogitate, conjecture, contemplate; antonym (v) forget, 2. imagine; synonyms (v) think, assume, conceive, daydream, fancy, devise, envision, fantasize, see, visualize, calculate, image, divine, gather, (n) dream, 3. believe; synonyms (v) accredit, understand, accept, expect, hope, suspect, apprehend, trow, credit, deem, infer, presume, speculate, (n) belief, trust; antonyms (v) disbelieve, distrust.
- думка 1. thought; synonyms (v) observation, (n) notion, idea, opinion, conception, consideration, impression, belief, feeling, reflection, sentiment, concept, judgment, apprehension, attention; antonym (n) fact, 2. idea; synonyms (n) meaning, design, estimation, fancy, plan, thought, suggestion, conceit, appearance, guess, aim, estimate, hypothesis, image, imagination, 3. opinion; synonyms (n) advice, conjecture, mind, view, counsel, comment, decision, conviction, attitude, look, position, supposition, verdict, appraisal, eye, 4. mind (po3ym); synonyms (n) intellect, brain, head, inclination, intelligence, psyche, regard, mentality, (v) care, attend, beware, keep, listen, notice, (adj) heed; antonym (v) forget, 5. view; synonyms (n) sight, scene, outlook, prospect, aspect, show, spectacle, survey, glance, (v) observe, see, consider, behold, deem, examine, 6. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, score, tale, description, explanation, history, narration, reason, recital, story, tab, tally, (v) report, 7. notion; synonyms

- (n) caprice, hunch, inkling, perception, suspicion, whim, impulse, effect, fantasy, hint, sense, understanding, dream, intent, viewpoint.
- **дуоденальний** duodenal; *synonyms* (*adj*) abdominal, duodenary, intestinal.
- дурень 1. fool; *synonyms* (n) blockhead, dunce, clown, ass, buffoon, dolt, (v) dupe, deceive, bamboozle, befool, cheat, con, defraud, delude, gull, 2. owl (сова); *synonyms* (n) hooter, booby, looby, nizy, noddy, nonny, noodle, howlet, awl, beak, burglar, honker, horn, nozzle, strich
- дурити fool; synonyms (n) blockhead, dunce, clown, ass, buffoon, dolt, (v) dupe, deceive, bamboozle, befool, cheat, con, defraud, delude, gull.
- дурний 1. stupid; synonyms (adj) foolish, silly, dull, fatuous, idiotic, ridiculous, senseless, crass, insane, childish, dim, (n) simple, absurd, dullard, idiot; antonyms (adj) sensible, bright, clever, intelligent, shrewd, wise, 2. dense; synonyms (adj) compact, thick, close, crowded, deep, heavy, impenetrable, solid, stupid, concentrated, dumb, firm, gross, lush, obtuse; antonyms (adj) insightful, loose, readable, sparse, 3. daft; synonyms (adj) crazy, wacky, bonkers, demented, nutty, balmy, inane, barmy, batty, dotty, haywire, insensate, kookie, kooky, loco, 4. foolish; synonyms (adj) fool, daft, dopey, preposterous, unwise, anserine, dopy, imprudent, irrational, ludicrous, mad, nonsensical, thoughtless, unreasonable, wild; antonyms (adj) prudent, visionary, 5. fool; synonyms (n) blockhead, dunce, clown, ass, buffoon, dolt, (v) dupe, deceive, bamboozle, befool, cheat, con, defraud, delude, gull.
- дурник silly; synonyms (adj) foolish, absurd, ridiculous, childish, fatuous, fool, frivolous, idiotic, irrational, preposterous, unreasonable, crazy, daft, dizzy, (n) imbecile; antonyms (adj) sensible, mature, wise.
- ДУРНИЦЯ 1. rubbish; synonyms (n) refuse, garbage, litter, nonsense, trash, junk, offal, debris, drivel, hogwash, trumpery, waste, dirt, falderal, (adj) bosh; antonym (n) sense, 2. nonsense; synonyms (n) gibberish, absurdity, balderdash, baloney, folderol, foolishness, humbug, claptrap, folly, hooey, jargon, rigmarole, cobblers, fudge, (v) stuff.
- дути blow; synonyms (n) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (v) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (adj) gasp; antonyms (v) calm, save.
- ДУТТЯ blowing; *synonyms* (v) fanning, (n) bravado, (adj) windy, breezy.
- дух 1. spirit; synonyms (n) apparition, courage, ghost, life, mood, bravery, character, disposition, energy, enthusiasm, essence, heart, mind, phantom, (adj) animation; antonyms (n) lethargy, body, 2. soul (душа); synonyms (n) man, creature, human, individual, person, personification, being, mortal, psyche, self, marrow, bosom, (adj) core, quintessence, gist, 3. mind (розум); synonyms (n) intellect, brain, head, inclination, intelligence, regard, mentality, (v) care, look, attend, beware, keep, listen, notice, (adj) heed; antonym (v) forget.
- **ДУХІВНИЦТВО** ministry; *synonyms* (n) cabinet, government, clergy, ministration, administration,

- clericals, prelacy, presbytery, aid, bureaucracy, channel, (v) attendance, attendants, attention, (adj) abandoned.
- **ДУХОВЕНСТВО** clergy; synonyms (n) clericals, clerics, ecclesiastics, presbytery, canonicate, canonry, churchmen, conclave, deaconry, diaconate, learning, rabbinate; antonym (n) laity.
- **ДУХОВКА** oven; *synonyms* (n) kiln, furnace, stove, heater, range, boiler.
- духовний spiritual; synonyms (adj) ghostly, holy, immaterial, religious, incorporeal, pious, divine, ethereal, mental, psychic, metaphysical, intellectual, sacred, supernatural, unworldly; antonyms (adj) physical, worldly, secular, earthly.
- душ shower; *synonyms* (*n*) rain, drizzle, barrage, rainfall, torrent, volley, (*v*) pour, bathe, hail, sprinkle, wash, shed, bath, scatter, spray.
- душа soul; *synonyms* (*n*) man, creature, ghost, heart, human, individual, mind, person, personification, being, essence, life, mortal, psyche, (*adi*) core.
- **ДУШОΚ** odour; *synonyms* (n) fragrance, flavour, aroma, smell, odor, scent, flavor, feel, feeling, look, olfaction, smelling, spirit, tone.
- дюжина dozen; synonym (n) twelve.
- дюйм inch; *synonyms* (n) in, (v) edge, crawl, creep, ease. дядько uncle; *synonym* (n) pawnbroker.
- ДЯК lecturer; synonyms (n) instructor, lector, professor, reader, teacher, coach, orator, preacher, speaker, trainer, tutor, educator.
- дякувати thank; *synonyms* (*v*) acknowledge, bless, remercy, kiss, praise.

## $\mathbf{E}$

- **еволюційний** evolutionary; *synonym* (n) evolutionist. **еволюція** 1. evolution; *synonyms* (n) development, growth, expansion, movement, process, progress, evolvement, change, mutation, advance, alteration, modification, progression, (v) operation, elimination; *antonym* (n) deterioration, 2. development; *synonyms* (n) evolution, course, improvement, increase, spread, augmentation, developing, effect, elaboration, result, complication, amplification, maturity, accession, creation; *antonyms* (n) decline, neglect, decrease.
- eroїстичний selfish; synonyms (adj) mean, greedy, mercenary, egocentric, egoistic, egotistic, egotistical, self-centered, stingy, covetous, inconsiderate, sordid, thoughtless, exclusive, (v) contracted; antonyms (adj) unselfish, selfless, altruistic, generous.
- еквівалент equivalent; synonyms (adj) equal, comparable, alike, analogous, even, corresponding, identical, like, matching, same, equipollent, commensurate, (n) counterpart, match, (v) consideration; antonyms (adj) unlike, (n) different, dissimilar.
- **EKBIBAJIEHTHИЙ** equivalent; *synonyms* (*adj*) equal, comparable, alike, analogous, even, corresponding, identical, like, matching, same, equipollent, commensurate, (*n*) counterpart, match, (*v*)

- consideration; *antonyms* (adj) unlike, (n) different, dissimilar.
- **ek3ameh 1**. exam; *synonyms* (n) test, examination, quiz, assessment, challenge, examen, interrogation, run, **2**. examination; *synonyms* (n) audit, check, exam, search, consideration, exploration, inquiry, investigation, study, survey, testing, contemplation, analysis, appraisal, evaluation.
- eksameнyвати examine; synonyms (v) assay, audit, consider, overhaul, try, check, control, search, survey, ascertain, ask, contemplate, compare, analyze, canvass.
- **EK3EMILISP 1.** Copy; *synonyms* (*n*) imitation, trace, transcription, forgery, (*v*) counterfeit, imitate, ape, duplicate, model, pattern, follow, echo, fake, mimic, record; *antonym* (*n*) original, **2**. specimen; *synonyms* (*n*) exemplar, sample, example, instance, copy, person, illustration, representative, type.
- **екзотичний** exotic; *synonyms* (*adj*) alien, foreign, strange, extraneous, outlandish, unusual, different, curious, extrinsic, unfamiliar, unknown; *antonyms* (*adj*) familiar, ordinary.
- екіпаж 1. carriage; synonyms (n) attitude, transport, behavior, conveyance, air, coach, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, (v) bearing,
  2. crew; synonyms (n) company, cluster, band, bunch, gang, party, assemblage, crowd, faction, group, set, side, team, assembly, association.
- **EKIIIIPYBAHHЯ** outfit; *synonyms* (*n*) dress, garb, gear, kit, apparel, clothing, company, costume, ensemble, rig, (*v*) equipment, attire, equip, fit, furnish.
- **екологія** ecology; *synonyms* (*n*) bionomics, botany, conservationism, network, system.
- EKOHOMUTU 1. spare; *synonyms* (*adj*) reserve, slender, excess, save, slight, additional, lean, slim, thin, bare, (*v*) free, meager, exempt, (*n*) extra, backup, 2. save; *synonyms* (*v*) deliver, economize, rescue, conserve, hoard, keep, maintain, preserve, liberate, protect, redeem, retain, defend, accumulate, (*prep*) except; *antonyms* (*v*) spend, squander, waste.
- **EKOHOMIKA 1.** economy; *synonyms* (*n*) frugality, parsimony, saving, thrift, conservation, efficiency, husbandry, prudence, stinginess, thriftiness, brevity, cut, (*adj*) system, arrangement, array; *antonym* (*n*) extravagance, **2.** economics; *synonyms* (*n*) finance, economy, commerce, money, backing, funding, investment, sponsorship.
- **ekohomict** economist; *synonyms* (n) cultivator, husband, husbandman, tiller.
- **економічний** economic; *synonyms* (*adj*) commercial, financial, profitable, efficient, economical, fiscal, industrial, mercantile, pecuniary, trade, monetary, breadand-butter, budgetary, helpful, material.
- **EKOHOMI4HICTL** economy; *synonyms* (*n*) frugality, parsimony, saving, thrift, conservation, efficiency, husbandry, prudence, stinginess, thriftiness, brevity, cut, (*adj*) system, arrangement, array; *antonym* (*n*) extravagance.
- **EKOHOMI9** saving; *synonyms* (*n*) economy, conservation, preservation, rescue, cut, deliverance,

- delivery, (adj) economical, frugal, thrifty, save, chary, except, excepting, sparing; antonym (n) extravagance.
- **економка** housekeeper; *synonyms* (n) matron, factotum, shepherd, seneschal.
- **ekohomho** economically; *synonyms* (*adv*) frugally, sparingly, cheaply, financially, fiscally, inexpensively, monetarily, powerfully, prudently, reasonably, stingily, well, ably, capably, carefully; *antonym* (*adv*) extravagantly.
- **ekpah** screen; *synonyms* (n) shade, blind, riddle, disguise, partition, veil, guard, (v) cover, shield, conceal, hide, mask, protect, shelter, cloak.
- **EKPAHI3YBATU** screen; *synonyms* (*n*) shade, blind, riddle, disguise, partition, veil, guard, (*v*) cover, shield, conceal, hide, mask, protect, shelter, cloak.
- **EKPAHYBATU** shield; *synonyms* (*n*) screen, shelter, buffer, armor, protection, shade, (*v*) cover, guard, safeguard, preserve, secure, defend, hide, protect, buckler; *antonym* (*v*) expose.
- **EKCKPEMEHTU** cast; *synonyms* (v) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (n) appearance, casting, mold.
- **EKCIIAHCIЯ** expansion; *synonyms* (*n*) amplification, enlargement, development, dilatation, dilation, elaboration, growth, stretch, distention, evolution, increase, inflation, swelling, (*v*) extension, augmentation; *antonyms* (*n*) contraction, decrease, reduction, abbreviation.
- **експедиція** expedition; *synonyms* (*n*) excursion, dispatch, journey, travel, celerity, exploration, haste, outing, quest, readiness, speed, tour, trip, (*v*) campaign, crusade.
- **експеримент** experiment; *synonyms* (*n*) test, attempt, essay, trial, tentative, try, examination, taste, experience, experimentation, (*ν*) examine, venture, check.
- **експериментальний** experimental; *synonyms* (*adj*) empirical, tentative, scientific, observational, pilot, test, trial
- **EKCΠΕΡΗΜΕΗΤУΒΑΤИ** experiment; *synonyms* (n) test, attempt, essay, trial, tentative, try, examination, taste, experience, experimentation, (ν) examine, venture, check
- **EKCHEPT 1.** expert; *synonyms* (*adj*) adept, adroit, dexterous, skillful, able, clever, experienced, accomplished, ace, apt, (*n*) professional, proficient, critic, authority, connoisseur; *antonyms* (*adj*) unskilled, inept, inferior, untrained, (*n*) amateur, beginner, **2.** judge; *synonyms* (*n*) arbiter, arbitrator, referee, (*v*) consider, estimate, evaluate, think, believe, condemn, assess, adjudicate, calculate, decide, guess, umpire.
- **експертиза 1.** expertise; *synonyms* (*n*) ability, capability, competence, competency, dexterity, knowledge, proficiency, skill, art, command, talent, aptitude, expertness, knack, prowess, **2**. inspection; *synonyms* (*n*) examination, check, review, surveillance, exploration, inquiry, scrutiny, search, study, survey, investigation, observation, oversight, sight, (*v*) inspect.
- **ЕКСПЛУАТАТОР** sweater; *synonym* (*n*) perspirer. **ЕКСПЛУАТАЦІЙНИЙ** operating; *synonyms* (*n*) operation, exploitation, farming, (*adj*) running, working,

- acting, functioning, operative, effective, active, employed, energetic, energical, engaged, loose.
- ekch.nyatauis 1. exploitation; synonyms (n) abuse, development, misuse, employment, operation, use, using, ventilation, plunder, achievement, consumption, corruption, cruelty, damage, defacement, 2. working; synonyms (adj) operative, practical, active, busy, acting, occupied, effective, engaged, (n) running, functioning, play, agency, movement, performance, go; antonyms (adj) passive, unemployed, 3. operation; synonyms (n) execution, act, effect, business, management, action, function, mission, task, job, activity, exercise, force, manipulation, operations.
- **експлуатувати 1.** exploit; *synonyms* (*v*) act, exercise, apply, employ, use, abuse, harness, (*n*) deed, achievement, feat, accomplishment, action, adventure, effort, performance, **2**. operate; *synonyms* (*v*) function, run, direct, go, handle, manage, move, perform, proceed, work, maneuver, fly, behave, control, do.
- EKCHO3HILIЯ exposure; synonyms (n) display, exposition, detection, peril, danger, risk, expose, discovery, revealing, jeopardy, liability, revelation, advertising, susceptibility, (v) disclosure.
- **εκcπορτ** export; *synonyms* (*n*) exportation, business, buying, exchange, retail, (*v*) import, trade, smuggle, market, port, sell, ship, consign, dump, freight.
- **експортувати** export; *synonyms* (*n*) exportation, business, buying, exchange, retail, (*v*) import, trade, smuggle, market, port, sell, ship, consign, dump, freight.
- **EKCHPEC** express; *synonyms* (v) exhibit, articulate, convey, declare, demonstrate, display, mean, (adj) explicit, direct, definite, distinct, especial, clear, exact, (n) denote; *antonyms* (v) suppress, hide, (adj) slow, vague.
- **eκcτpakt** extract; *synonyms* (n) excerpt, essence, juice, quotation, quote, citation, (ν) draw, abstract, derive, educe, elicit, distill, express, get, extort.
- **ЕКСТРАОРДИНАРНИЙ** extraordinary; *synonyms* (*adj*) distinguished, curious, exceptional, odd, abnormal, amazing, astonishing, bizarre, extra, phenomenal, rare, special, strange, unusual, famous; *antonyms* (*adj*) ordinary, normal, everyday.
- EKCTPEMAJISHUM extreme; synonyms (adj) deep, excessive, enormous, immoderate, intense, severe, supreme, terrible, ultimate, utmost, uttermost, drastic, extraordinary, (n) edge, end; antonyms (adj) middle, reasonable, near, (n) mild, moderate, slight.
- **ЕКСТРЕНИЙ** special; *synonyms* (*adj*) particular, especial, individual, limited, rare, different, distinguished, distinct, express, certain, distinctive, exceptional, extra, extraordinary, (*adv*) apart; *antonym* (*adj*) ordinary.
- **ексцентричний** 1. eccentric; *synonyms* (*adj*) bizarre, odd, wacky, abnormal, anomalous, crazy, erratic, irregular, outlandish, peculiar, strange, droll, comical, (*n*) character, case; *antonyms* (*adj*) normal, ordinary, (*n*) conformist, 2. bizarre; *synonyms* (*adj*) eccentric, fanciful, grotesque, singular, curious, extraordinary, fantastic, freakish, outre, quaint, queer, unusual, remarkable, striking, different.

- **EKCHEC** excess; *synonyms* (*adj*) extra, additional, (*n*) surplus, dissipation, extravagance, plethora, abundance, exaggeration, glut, overabundance, overindulgence, overplus, remainder, rest, superfluity; *antonyms* (*n*) lack, shortage, restraint, moderation, dearth, shortfall.
- EJIACTИЧНИЙ flexible; synonyms (adj) elastic, adaptable, pliable, yielding, lissome, pliant, soft, supple, facile, adjustable, bendable, compliant, ductile, flexile, lithe; antonyms (adj) inflexible, rigid, fixed, obstinate, stiff, stubborn.
- елегантний 1. elegant; synonyms (adj) graceful, courtly, delicate, splendid, beautiful, dainty, polite, refined, dressy, artistic, charming, chic, classy, cultured, debonair; antonyms (adj) clumsy, inelegant, scruffy, ugly, coarse, plain, tacky, 2. delicate; synonyms (adj) fine, accurate, breakable, fragile, tender, brittle, difficult, frail, nice, sensitive, soft, slim, agreeable, infirm, careful; antonyms (adj) strong, robust, heavy, sturdy, tough, 3. nice; synonyms (adj) fastidious, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, correct, decent, enjoyable, exact, particular, precise, right, elegant; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible.
- EJIEKTOPAT electorate; *synonyms* (*n*) constituency, caliphate, party, pashalic, public, community, population, supporters, (*v*) constituents.
- електрика electricity; synonyms (n) energy, flow, fuel, pyrogen, electron, heat, ignition, (adj) light, lightning, electromagnetism, magnetism, voltaism, wind, gravity, (v) electrize.
- електричний 1. electric; *synonyms* (*adj*) exciting, electrical, galvanic, emotional, fidgety, fussy, hasty, hurried, restless, stimulating, automatic, dynamic, (*n*) rapturous, (*v*) mercurial, telegraphic, 2. electrical; *synonyms* (*adj*) electric, thrilling, automated, electrifying, galvanising, galvanizing, magnetic.
- **електрон** electron; *synonyms* (*n*) electricity, molecule, negatron, amber.
- електронний electronic; synonyms (adj) automated, automatic
- enement 1. element; synonyms (n) component, constituent, ingredient, factor, substance, fundamental, feature, matter, origin, part, unit, cause, module, point, article, 2. member; synonyms (n) limb, supporter, extremity, phallus, portion, appendage, employee, fellow, section, division, element, follower, associate, branch, link, 3. principle; synonyms (n) method, rule, doctrine, ground, basis, dogma, essence, law, precept, reason, tenet, base, integrity, canon, formula.
- **елементарний** elementary; *synonyms* (*adj*) basic, fundamental, primary, primitive, simple, basal, easy, elemental, essential, introductory, original, rudimentary, preliminary, artless, initial.
- EJITA elite; synonyms (n) cream, best, pick, prime, aristocracy, nobility, prize, top, (adj) flower, elect, choice, select.
- ель ale; *synonyms* (n) beer, eale, (v) stingo, liqueur, spirits, wine.
- **EMIFPAHT** exile; *synonyms* (*n*) banishment, deportation, expulsion, deportee, outcast, refugee, emigrant, expatriation, (*v*) banish, expatriate, deport,

- expel, eject, proscribe, (adj) exclude; antonym (v) repatriate.
- **emicis** emission; *synonyms* (n) discharge, emanation, effusion, ejection, venting, vent, dismission.
- **ЕМОЦІЙНИЙ** emotional; *synonyms* (*adj*) dramatic, affecting, affective, effusive, moving, passionate, poignant, sensational, sensitive, warm, affectional, excited, fervent, mawkish, (*v*) emotive; *antonyms* (*adj*) impassive, unemotional, unflappable.
- emouis 1. emotion; synonyms (n) affection, love, feeling, passion, sensation, heart, agitation, commotion, excitement, mood, pathos, sensibility, anger, (v) impression; antonym (n) intelligence, 2. feeling; synonyms (n) feel, emotion, atmosphere, belief, hunch, intuition, opinion, sense, sensitivity, sentiment, enthusiasm, air, effect, (adj) emotional, sensitive; antonyms (n) numbness, indifference.
- **ЕНЕРГЕТИЧНИЙ** energetic; *synonyms* (*adj*) active, animated, brisk, busy, driving, dynamic, effective, powerful, strong, agile, emphatic, aggressive, efficacious, efficient, enterprising; *antonyms* (*adj*) lethargic, lazy, sluggish, exhausted, inactive, indolent, languid, weary, apathetic, dull, indifferent, listless.
- енергійний 1. energetic; synonyms (adi) active, animated, brisk, busy, driving, dynamic, effective, powerful, strong, agile, emphatic, aggressive, efficacious, efficient, enterprising; antonyms (adj) lethargic, lazy, sluggish, exhausted, inactive, indolent, languid, weary, apathetic, dull, indifferent, listless, 2. vigorous; synonyms (adj) robust, energetic, hardy, lively, strenuous, athletic, hearty, mighty, healthy, smart, brawny, muscular, forceful, (n) brave, (v) fresh; antonyms (adj) feeble, weak, unenergetic, 3. aggressive; synonyms (adj) belligerent, hostile, invasive, offensive, pushy, warlike, assertive, militant, pugnacious, pushful, pushing, quarrelsome, truculent, ambitious, competitive; antonyms (adj) peaceful, friendly, peaceable, passive, peace-loving, suspicious, 4. eager; synonyms (adj) avid, desirous, ardent, earnest, agog, acute, enthusiastic, keen, zealous, industrious, studious, burning, craving, excited, fervent; antonyms (adj) disinterested, unconcerned, 5. active; synonyms (adj) alert, diligent, live, nimble, alive, forcible, mercurial, quick, spirited, sprightly, vigorous, vivacious, vivid, operational, assiduous; antonyms (adj) dormant, idle, latent, sedentary, slow, extinct, quiet.
- enepris 1. energy; synonyms (n) animation, dash, force, life, spirit, determination, drive, effort, might, strength, vigor, vitality, capability, action, activity; antonyms (n) lethargy, apathy, exhaustion, tiredness, weakness, idleness, sluggishness, 2. will; synonyms (v) bequeath, devise, wish, leave, (n) volition, command, desire, inclination, pleasure, resolve, intent, mind, courage, liking, purpose, 3. activity; synonyms (n) activeness, exercise, liveliness, play, job, agency, agility, diligence, energy, enterprise, industry, movement, occupation, work, enthusiasm; antonyms (n) inactivity, inaction, inactiveness, 4. might; synonyms (v) can, could, main, (n) power, ability, influence, brawn, intensity, puissance, vehemence, authority, efficacy, capacity, mightiness, muscle, 5. punch; synonyms (n) jab, drill, cuff, die,

- wallop, blow, dig, knock, (v) poke, hit, prick, beat, perforate, stab, thrust, **6**. spring (BecHa); *synonyms* (n) jump, leap, bound, fountain, skip, source, dance, rise, (v) hop, caper, bounce, dive, originate, recoil, (adj) elastic.
- ензим enzyme; synonyms (n) catalyst, solution.
- eHTY3ia3M enthusiasm; synonyms (n) eagerness, ardor, devotion, passion, animation, craze, zeal, ebullience, ecstasy, flame, gusto, inspiration, interest, keenness, (adj) fervor; antonyms (n) apathy, indifference, lethargy.
- eni3oq episode; synonyms (n) affair, chapter, event, incident, occurrence, happening, installment, occasion, circumstance, subdivision, anecdote, experience, fact, instalment, interlude.
- **EHOXA 1.** day; *synonyms* (*n*) light, daylight, generation, age, daytime, epoch, time, crisis; *antonyms* (*n*) nighttime, night, **2**. period; *synonyms* (*n*) dot, era, point, duration, day, conclusion, cycle, interval, length, menstruation, stage, mark, course, lifetime, catamenia.
- epa era; synonyms (n) age, period, time, epoch, date, cycle, style.
- **eposis** erosion; *synonyms* (*n*) attrition, abrasion, corrosion, corroding, eroding, friction, wear.
- EPУДОВАНИЙ learned; synonyms (v) knowing, (adj) erudite, educated, enlightened, knowledgeable, wise, academic, scholarly, bookish, cultured, intellectual, lettered, literary, studious, informed; antonyms (adj) ignorant, innate.
- **ECEHUIЯ** essence; *synonyms* (*n*) core, entity, aroma, being, crux, gist, perfume, hypostasis, body, burden, extract, fragrance, heart, kernel, nub.
- ECКАДРА squadron; *synonyms* (*n*) fleet, group, brigade, corps, flotilla, navy, armada, battalion, cavalry. ECКАДРОН squadron; *synonyms* (*n*) fleet, group.
- brigade, corps, flotilla, navy, armada, battalion, cavalry. ecki3 sketch; synonyms (n) plan, drawing, outline, scheme, cartoon, project, (v) design, paint, draft, draw, picture, chart, delineate, depict, describe.
- ECCE essay; *synonyms* (n) dissertation, article, disquisition, composition, effort, tentative, paper, (v) endeavor, attempt, try, assay, offer, prove, seek, strive.
- ecтетичний aesthetic; synonyms (adj) esthetic, aesthetical, esthetical, artistic, perceptive, sentient, affective, beauty, conscious, cultured, decorative, deep, graceful, intense, invigorating.
- **ЕТИКА 1**. ethics; *synonyms* (*n*) morality, morals, conscience, behavior, philosophy, code, dignity, ethology, ideology, principle, principles, scruples, standards, tradition, values, **2**. morality; *synonyms* (*n*) ethics, goodness, honesty, virtue, decency, integrity, righteousness, chastity, rectitude, probity, propriety; *antonyms* (*n*) immorality, decadence.
- **етикетка** label; *synonyms* (*n*) name, brand, tag, title, designation, earmark, docket, group, (*v*) mark, call, classify, check, designate, distinguish, identify.
- **ЕТИКИ** ethics; *synonyms* (n) morality, morals, conscience, behavior, philosophy, code, dignity, ethology, ideology, principle, principles, scruples, standards, tradition, values.
- **етичний 1**. ethical; *synonyms* (*adj*) ethic, decent, just, moral, right, upright, good, virtuous, honest, honorable,

- righteous; *antonyms* (*adj*) immoral, unethical, **2**. moral; *synonyms* (*adj*) ethical, chaste, proper, noble, pure, religious, fair, honourable, worthy, (*n*) lesson, meaning, significance, example, byword; *antonyms* (*adj*) bad, unwholesome.
- **етнічний** ethnic; *synonyms* (*adj*) national, ethnical, heathen, pagan, cultural, gentile, social, ancestral, clannish, family, indigenous, native, traditional.
- ethekt effect; synonyms (n) consequence, product, result, sequel, aftermath, conclusion, (v) accomplish, achieve, create, cause, complete, do, bring, carry, execute; antonym (n) reason.
- ефективний 1. effective; synonyms (adj) beneficial, practical, effectual, efficacious, operative, strong, actual, fruitful, positive, active, forceful, (n) competent, capable, able, efficient; antonyms (adj) ineffective, useless, weak, inoperative, 2. efficient; synonyms (adj) effective, valid, adept, adroit, neat, regular, energetic, expeditious, expert, forcible, good, potent, powerful, proficient, (v) clever; antonyms (adj) incompetent, inefficient.
- ефективність 1. efficacy; synonyms (n) effect, effectiveness, potency, capability, efficaciousness, efficiency, force, utility, energy, might, power, strength, usefulness, validity, vigor; antonyms (n) inefficacy, inefficiency, 2. effectiveness; synonyms (n) efficacy, result, powerfulness, effectivity, effectuality, effectualness, influence, success, expediency, weight; antonyms (n) uselessness, ineffectiveness, 3. efficiency; synonyms (n) ability, capacity, aptitude, output, proficiency, ease, (v) agency, action; antonyms (n) incompetence, largeness, 4. performance; synonyms (n) act, discharge, achievement, execution, fulfillment, observance, accomplishment, deed, completion, exploit, implementation, operation, recital, work, doing; antonyms (n) omission, practice.
- ефектний 1. spectacular; synonyms (adj) dramatic, sensational, amazing, fabulous, salient, striking, stunning, prodigious, stupendous, scenic, fantastic, great, magnificent, splendid, theatrical; antonym (adj) modest,
   2. dramatic; synonyms (adj) spectacular, impressive, exciting, sudden, thespian; antonyms (adj) gradual, undramatic

## $\epsilon$

- €Bahrenie gospel; synonyms (n) belief, creed, doctrine, evangel, gospels, truth, credo, fact, faith, veracity, declaration, evidence, particular, (adj) pope, literal.
- **сдиний 1.** sole; *synonyms* (*adj*) lone, single, singular, one, alone, exclusive, individual, only, solitary, particular, separate, (*n*) bottom, base, flounder, (*v*) resole, **2.** single; *synonyms* (*adj*) celibate, odd, distinct, isolated, lonely, simple, sole, several, common, discrete, different, free, sincere, unmarried, (*n*) bachelor; *antonyms* (*adj*) married, double, multiple, **3.** only; *synonyms* (*adv*) but, exclusively, just, merely, barely, entirely, simply, however, solely, hardly, exactly, nevertheless, absolutely, (*adj*) all, matchless, **4.** one (ОДИН);

- synonyms (pron) any, man, (n) anybody, somebody, person, ace, anyone, unit, unity, (adj) certain, unique, some, united, ane, (adv) once.
- **єдність** 1. unity; *synonyms* (*n*) union, agreement, concord, harmony, oneness, unison, completeness, integrity, consistency, identity, one, single, consensus, entirety, communion; *antonyms* (*n*) discord, separation, 2. accord; *synonyms* (*n*) assent, consonance,
  - 2. tecord, *synonyms* (*n*) assert, consontate, concurrence, conformity, (*v*) agree, consent, give, bestow, grant, harmonize, suit, adjust, comply, compromise, confer; *antonyms* (*n*) disagreement, strife, (*v*) conflict.
- **EMHICT5** Volume; *synonyms* (*n*) bulk, size, book, magnitude, mass, quantity, dimension, amount, capacity, intensity, loudness, tome, journal, (*adj*) deal, pot; *antonym* (*n*) quietness.
- επисκοπ bishop; synonyms (n) archbishop, primate, clergyman, elder, eminence, episcopant, metropolitan, minister, (v) wassail, cup, flip, grog, negus, punch, purl.
- ENICKON bishop; synonyms (n) archbishop, primate, clergyman, elder, eminence, episcopant, metropolitan, minister, (v) wassail, cup, flip, grog, negus, punch, purl.
- **ECTBO** nature; *synonyms* (n) character, disposition, class, essence, creation, quality, breed, attribute, constitution, humor, manner, mettle, temperament, type, (adj) kind.

## Ж

- жаба frog; synonyms (n) frogs, toad, aigulet, anuran, batrachian, chamois, epaulet, grasshopper, abutment, dollar, freshman, goat, salientian, toadfrog, slade.
- ЖАДАНИЙ 1. desirable; synonyms (adj) advisable, eligible, expedient, fitting, suitable, worthy, appropriate, alluring, charming, agreeable, covetable, enviable, fascinating, good, pleasant; antonym (adj) undesirable,
  2. acceptable; synonyms (adj) adequate, passable, satisfactory, correct, decent, desirable, grateful, palatable, permissible, reasonable, sufficient, tolerable, welcome, right, accepted; antonyms (adj) unacceptable, inadequate, unsatisfactory, disagreeable, forbidden, unbearable, unwelcome.
- ЖАДАТИ 1. hunger; synonyms (n) desire, thirst, appetite, craving, wish, itch, eagerness, famine, longing, starvation, (v) crave, want, ache, long, lust; antonym (n) moderation, 2. desire; synonyms (n) ambition, hope, aspiration, will, dream, impulse, liking, request, (v) fancy, aspire, seek, aim, choose, like, care; antonyms (n) aversion, reality, (v) dislike, hate, 3. pine (сосна); synonyms (n) yearn, sink, (v) languish, droop, flag, fade, suffer, decline, yen, die, (adj) peak.
- ЖАДАЮЧИЙ hungry (голодний); synonyms (adj) avid, eager, esurient, famished, greedy, ravenous, starving, desirous, meager, starveling, barren, keen, peckish, (v) craving, (adv) empty; antonyms (adj) full, sated, satiated.
- **жакет** jacket; *synonyms* (n) casing, sheath, case, cover, covering, envelope, coat, skin, shield, wrap, (v) clothe.

- жалість 1. compassion; synonyms (n) pity, clemency, mercy, charity, commiseration, sympathy, forgiveness, remorse, tenderness, benevolence, condolence, consideration, feeling, grace, (adj) kindness; antonyms (n) cruelty, indifference, 2. pity; synonyms (n) compassion, pathos, shame, comfort, sorrow, heart, (v) commiserate, compassionate, sympathize, condole, misery; antonym (n) blame.
- **ЖАЛКУВАТИ** regret; *synonyms* (v) bewail, grieve, bemoan, deplore, lament, mourn, sorrow, repent, (n) grief, compunction, contrition, penitence, remorse, repentance, disappointment.
- жаль 1. regret; *synonyms* (*v*) bewail, grieve, bemoan, deplore, lament, mourn, sorrow, repent, (*n*) grief, compunction, contrition, penitence, remorse, repentance, disappointment, 2. sorrow; *synonyms* (*n*) mourning, regret, sadness, anguish, heartache, misery, heartbreak, hardship, concern, affliction, dejection, pity, trouble, (*adj*) distress, (*v*) pain; *antonyms* (*n*) joy, delight, happiness, 3. pity; *synonyms* (*n*) compassion, commiseration, mercy, condolence, clemency, pathos, shame, sympathy, comfort, feeling, benevolence, (*v*) commiserate, compassionate, sympathize, condole; *antonym* (*n*) blame.
- жалюгідний 1. wretched; synonyms (adj) unfortunate, unhappy, forlorn, pitiful, sad, deplorable, lamentable, low, mean, pathetic, piteous, pitiable, sorry, (v) miserable, poor; antonym (adj) happy, 2. miserable; synonyms (adj) meager, abject, bad, desolate, downcast, measly, distressed, cheerless, contemptible, dejected, depressed, despondent, disconsolate, dismal, (v) wretched; antonyms (adj) cheerful, generous, 3. sorry; synonyms (adj) contrite, paltry, penitent, remorseful, sorrowful, base, apologetic, regretful, repentant, dingy, distressing, drab, dreary, gloomy, melancholy; antonym (adj) unrepentant.
- **ЖАНР** genre; *synonyms* (n) class, form, manner, mode, style, type, order, species, kind, sort.
- **ЖAP** glow; *synonyms* (n) beam, color, glare, sparkle, blaze, flash, (v) blush, flush, gleam, glimmer, shine, burn, flare, fire, flame; *antonym* (n) dullness.
- ЖАРКИЙ tropical; synonyms (adj) tropic, torrid, hot, figurative, sunny, balmy, boiling, metaphorical, rank, translative, tropological, close, humid, lush, sticky; antonym (adj) freezing.
- жарт 1. joke; synonyms (n) jest, banter, hoax, fun, caper, gag, game, quip, antic, farce, humor, jape, jocularity, pleasantry, (v) chaff; antonym (n) tragedy, 2. trick; synonyms (n) deceit, deception, joke, prank, device, dupe, stratagem, (v) swindle, cheat, deceive, fraud, sham, con, mislead, beguile.
- жартувати joke (жарт); *synonyms* (n) jest, banter, hoax, fun, caper, gag, game, quip, antic, farce, humor, jape, jocularity, pleasantry, (v) chaff; *antonym* (n) tragedy.
- жати harvest; *synonyms* (n) crop, fruit, ingathering, produce, profit, yield, (v) gain, gather, glean, amass, collect, garner, get, pick, reap.
- жах 1. terror; *synonyms* (*n*) alarm, dread, fright, awe, dismay, fear, scare, consternation, horror, panic, anxiety, apprehension, scourge, trepidation, brat, 2. horror;

- *synonyms* (*n*) abomination, abhorrence, repulsion, revulsion, atrocity, aversion, disgust, dreadfulness, ghastliness, nightmare, antipathy, awfulness, distaste, terribleness, (*adj*) terror; *antonym* (*n*) pleasantness.
- ЖАХАЮЧИЙ terrific; synonyms (adj) marvelous, tremendous, fantastic, great, wonderful, shocking, dreadful, formidable, appalling, brilliant, enormous, fabulous, frightful, magnificent, (v) terrible; antonym (adj) awful.
- жахливий 1. fearful; synonyms (adj) afraid, cowardly, dreadful, anxious, apprehensive, awful, craven, terrible, timid, dire, eerie, formidable, frightful, appalling, awesome; antonyms (adj) brave, calm, rational, bold, confident, unimpressed, 2. horrible; synonyms (adj) abominable, atrocious, fearful, fearsome, ghastly, grisly, cruel, dismal, hideous, monstrous, forbidding, fierce, hateful, alarming, (v) horrid; antonyms (adj) pleasant, wonderful, lovely, nice, 3. awful; synonyms (adj) bad, horrible, nasty, amazing, deplorable, detestable, direful, disgusting, dread, gruesome, horrendous, horrific, lousy, serious, (adv) beastly; antonyms (adj) excellent, great, marvelous, 4. dreadful; synonyms (adj) disastrous, frightening, grievous, shocking, tremendous, unspeakable, woeful, calamitous, offensive, arrant, execrable, foul, heinous, horrifying, ill, 5. tremendous; synonyms (adj) terrific, enormous, fantastic, immense, huge, gigantic, mighty, prodigious, vast, massive, rattling, howling, brilliant, devastating, intense; antonym (adj) insignificant, 6. wretched; synonyms (adj) unfortunate, unhappy, forlorn, pitiful, sad, lamentable, low, mean, pathetic, piteous, pitiable, sorry, abject, (v) miserable, poor; antonym (adj) happy, 7. enormous; synonyms (adj) big, colossal, excessive, exorbitant, large, stupendous, gargantuan, giant, infinite, monumental, flagrant, immeasurable, mammoth, astonishing, incalculable; antonyms (adj) minute, small, tiny, miniature, 8. appalling; synonyms (adj) revolting, vile, dismaying, outrageous, unearthly, (v) grim; antonym (adi) admirable, 9. desperate; synonyms (adi) hopeless, despairing, critical, desolate, despondent, drastic, furious, grave, rank, reckless, extreme; antonym (adi) hopeful. 10. terrible: svnonvms (adi) severe. painful, desperate, wicked, dangerous, lurid, almighty. hard, evil, rotten, tough, tragic, ugly, violent, indescribable, 11. terrific; synonyms (adj) fabulous, magnificent, marvellous, splendid, super, superb, extraordinary, grand, outstanding, remarkable, terrifying.
- жвавий 1. vivid; synonyms (adj) graphic, intense, brilliant, lifelike, rich, live, acute, animated, clear, colorful, glowing, strong, picturesque, expressive, (v) bright; antonym (adj) dull, 2. alive; synonyms (adj) active, living, sensible, vivacious, lively, responsive, aware, eager, energetic, animate, awake, extant, keen, quick, intelligent; antonyms (adj) dead, deceased, inanimate, 3. brisk; synonyms (adj) agile, bracing, alive, alert, nimble, smart, sprightly, adroit, crisp, fast, fresh, hasty, invigorating, pert, sharp; antonyms (adj) slow, soporific, 4. active; synonyms (adj) busy, diligent, effective, brisk, dynamic, forcible, healthy, mercurial, spirited, vigorous, vivid, operational, hearty, assiduous, efficacious; antonyms (adj) dormant, inactive,

- sluggish, idle, latent, lethargic, sedentary, extinct, passive, quiet, **5**. lively; *synonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, gay, jolly, jovial, enthusiastic, merry, dashing, frolicsome, happy, fleet, joyful, lighthearted, amusing, airy, blithe; *antonyms* (*adj*) listless, lifeless, unexciting, **6**. mobile; *synonyms* (*adj*) changeable, fluid, unsettled, migrant, motile, erratic, flying, nomadic, peregrine, roving, unstable, variable, versatile, (*v*) movable, shifting; *antonyms* (*adj*) immobile, impassive, motionless.
- **ЖBABO** lively; *synonyms* (*adj*) brisk, active, agile, cheerful, energetic, keen, busy, fresh, gay, jolly, jovial, alert, animated, bright, enthusiastic; *antonyms* (*adj*) dull, inactive, lethargic, listless, lifeless, unexciting.
- ждати 1. wait (чекати); synonyms (v) expect, anticipate, stop, ambush, await, lurk, stay, linger, remain, abide, hesitate, (n) delay, pause, hold, (adj) tarry, 2. expect; synonyms (v) assume, believe, demand, understand, calculate, hope, suppose, think, conceive, call, mean, ask, bear, carry, conjecture.
- жебрачити beg; *synonyms* (*v*) adjure, ask, appeal, entreat, implore, cadge, crave, desire, importune, plead, pray, request, require, solicit, supplicate.
- жезл 1. staff; synonyms (n) cane, club, post, employees, faculty, personnel, rod, mace, baton, brace, stave, court, (v) crutch, prop, stick, 2. rod; synonyms (n) bar, perch, shaft, whip, arm, gat, staff, wand, truncheon, cudgel, scourge, splint, stake, stem, (v) line.
- желе jelly; *synonyms* (*n*) gel, conserve, jam, gelatin, preserves, (*v*) jellify, jell.
- **ЖЕНИТИ** marry; *synonyms* (*v*) join, link, conjoin, splice, tie, unite, wive, couple, combine, merge, connect, unify, match, (*n*) espouse, wed; *antonym* (*v*) divorce.
- женихання court; synonyms (n) forum, bar, close, field, tribunal, judicatory, passage, judge, courtroom, courtyard, (v) woo, attract, invite, romance, flatter; antonyms (v) avoid, shun.
- женихатися court; synonyms (n) forum, bar, close, field, tribunal, judicatory, passage, judge, courtroom, courtyard, (v) woo, attract, invite, romance, flatter; antonyms (v) avoid, shun.
- **ЖЕРЕБКУВАННЯ** ballot; *synonyms* (*n*) poll, vote, election, choice, plebiscite, voice, balloting, voting, (*v*) ticket, survey.
- жертва 1. sacrifice; synonyms (n) immolation, loss, forfeiture, (v) offering, oblation, forfeit, immolate, offer, give, lose, relinquish, grant, propose, contribute, present,
   2. victim; synonyms (n) prey, quarry, object, sufferer, dupe, butt, gull, mug, sucker, target, cull, cully, fool, game, gobemouche, 3. offering; synonyms (v) gift, favor, benefaction, boon, (n) contribution, donation, presentation, endowment, bestowal, gratuity, reward, tribute, victim, worship, exhibition.
- **ЖЕРТВОДАВЕЦЬ** donor; *synonyms* (n) contributor, giver, donator, presenter, bestower, source, supplier, angel, backer, benefactress, patroness, savior, (ν) feoffer, settlor; *antonyms* (n) receiver, recipient.
- ЖЕРТВОПРИНОШЕННЯ offering; synonyms (v) gift, grant, favor, benefaction, boon, (n) contribution, donation, oblation, offer, present, presentation, endowment, bestowal, gratuity, reward.

- **ЖЕРТВУВАТИ 1.** contribute; *synonyms* (v) conduce, bestow, bring, administer, aid, impart, provide, supply, tend, afford, endow, advance, assist, donate, give, **2**. sacrifice; *synonyms* (n) immolation, loss, forfeiture, (v) offering, oblation, forfeit, immolate, offer, lose, relinquish, grant, propose, contribute, present, victimize.
- **ЖЕРТОВНИК** altar; *synonyms* (n) shrine, sacristy, sanctuary.
- **жест 1.** gesture; *synonyms* (n) signal, gesticulation, indication, movement, (v) sign, beckon, gesticulate, motion, wave, 2. movement; *synonyms* (n) move, action, activity, campaign, crusade, advancement, cause, drive, passage, drift, flow, inclination, effort, evolution, front.
- **ЖЕСТИКУЛЮВАТИ** gesture; *synonyms* (n) signal, gesticulation, indication, movement, (ν) sign, beckon, gesticulate, motion, wave.
- живий 1. alive; synonyms (adj) active, live, living, sensible, vivacious, animated, lively, responsive, aware, eager, acute, energetic, animate, awake, extant; antonyms (adj) dead, deceased, inanimate, 2. lively; synonyms (adj) brisk, agile, cheerful, keen, busy, fresh, gay, jolly, jovial, alert, bright, enthusiastic, merry, spirited, (n) quick; antonyms (adj) dull, inactive, lethargic, listless, lifeless, unexciting, 3. live (жити, мешкати); synonyms (v) exist, inhabit, reside, subsist, abide, be, dwell, endure, stay, survive, continue, (adj) alive, bouncy, breathing, (n) go, 4. living; synonyms (adj) vital, actual, lifelike, (n) livelihood, being, life, aliveness, animation, benefice, existence, keep, maintenance, subsistence, support, lifetime; antonym (n) death.
- **ЖИВИТИ** feed; *synonyms* (*v*) eat, dine, nurture, browse, board, diet, encourage, nourish, fatten, consume, feast, (*n*) aliment, food, provender, fare; *antonym* (*v*) starve.
- живіт 1. belly; synonyms (n) abdomen, stomach, inside, bowels, intestines, waist, entrails, gut, paunch, venter, (v) balloon, swell, billow, bloat, bulge, 2. stomach; synonyms (n) appetite, belly, breadbasket, inclination, maw, (v) accept, brook, abide, bear, endure, stand, suffer, take, tolerate, (adj) digest.
- живлення feeding; synonyms (adj) tributary, depascent, (n) feed, alimentation, eating, nourishment, aliment, farming, casting, loading, victuals.
- живопие painting; synonyms (n) picture, portrait, likeness, depiction, icon, design, image, coat, drawing, art.
- **ЖИВОПИСЕЦЬ** painter; *synonyms* (n) artist, limner, cable, catamount, cougar, guy, halser, hawser, line.
- **ЖИВОПИСНИЙ** picturesque; *synonyms* (*adj*) graphic, striking, colorful, idyllic, lovely, quaint, scenic, vivid, romantic, (*v*) pictorial.
- живопліт hedge; synonyms (n) fence, barrier, hedging, hurdle, (v) dodge, fudge, elude, evade, skirt, avoid, circumvent, duck, equivocate, pen, border.
- **ЖИВОТІННЯ** vegetation; *synonyms* (n) flora, growth, plants, foliage, quietism, plant, bushes, flowers, idleness, shrubs, undergrowth, grass, leaves.

- жила vein; synonyms (n) streak, vena, nervure, strain, mine, temper, stripe, tone, cast, style, fund, funicle, (adj) humor, mood, strip.
- **ЖИЛКА** vein; *synonyms* (n) streak, vena, nervure, strain, mine, temper, stripe, tone, cast, style, fund, funicle, (adj) humor, mood, strip.
- жир fat; synonyms (adj) stout, corpulent, dense, thick, bulky, fatty, fertile, fleshy, gainful, greasy, great, (n) avoirdupois, blubber, cream, (v) fatten; antonyms (adj) thin, slim, skinny, slender.
- жирний fat; synonyms (adj) stout, corpulent, dense, thick, bulky, fatty, fertile, fleshy, gainful, greasy, great, (n) avoirdupois, blubber, cream, (v) fatten; antonyms (adj) thin, slim, skinny, slender.
- жити 1. live (мешкати); synonyms (v) exist, inhabit, reside, subsist, abide, be, dwell, endure, stay, survive, (adj) alive, active, animate, living, (n) go; antonyms (adj) dead, inanimate, 2. exist; synonyms (v) lie, consist, belong, continue, live, occur, hold, remain; antonym (v) die, 3. stay; synonyms (v) rest, prop, stop, pause, arrest, bide, support, linger, lodge, persist, sojourn, (n) delay, halt, check, (adj) cease; antonyms (v) leave, change, abscond, depart.
- **ЖИТЛО 1.** habitat; *synonyms* (*n*) dwelling, abode, residence, environment, home, place, territory, house, granger, **2.** accommodation; *synonyms* (*n*) adjustment, compromise, loan, lodging, adaptation, agreement, apartment, appeasement, convenience, ease, facility, fitting, housing, (*v*) advance, (*adj*) adaption, **3.** house; *synonyms* (*n*) family, firm, domicile, building, edifice, habitation, establishment, structure, ancestry, company, address, audience, business, (*v*) accommodate, lodge.
- житловий residential; *synonyms* (*adj*) developed, urban, urbanized, industrial, residentiary, residing.
- життєвий 1. vital; synonyms (adj) critical, essential, indispensable, animated, alive, crucial, fundamental, important, lively, main, necessary, chief, momentous, live, dynamic; antonyms (adj) trivial, insignificant, minor, optional, unimportant, 2. live (жити, мешкати); synonyms (v) exist, inhabit, reside, subsist, abide, be, dwell, endure, stay, survive, (adj) active, animate, living, brisk, (n) go; antonyms (adj) dead, inanimate
- життєздатний 1. viable; synonyms (adj) feasible, practicable, possible, workable, practical, alive, achievable, attainable, doable; antonym (adj) impossible, 2. healthy; synonyms (adj) healthful, fit, good, hale, salubrious, wholesome, beneficial, hearty, sound, well, whole, sane, abundant, nutritious, active; antonyms (adj) unhealthy, harmful, unwell, unfit, dependent, fattening, infected, soporific, unwholesome, weak.
- **життя 1.** life; *synonyms* (*n*) animation, energy, spirit, activity, being, biography, dash, enthusiasm, existence, exuberance, live, briskness, career, autobiography, endurance; *antonym* (*n*) lethargy, **2.** existence; *synonyms* (*n*) presence, entity, life, living, subsistence, essence, lifetime, occurrence, reality, time, world, beingness, cosmos, creation; *antonyms* (*n*) death, nonbeing, nonexistence.

- жінка 1. woman; synonyms (n) wife, girl, maid, womanhood, char, charwoman, soul, (obj) female, she; antonyms (n) man, gentleman, 2. wife; synonyms (n) matron, missis, partner, spouse, consort, helpmate, lady, woman, mistress, concubine, mother, sweetheart, bride, companion, helpmeet; antonym (n) husband.
- ЖІНКИ woman; synonyms (n) wife, girl, maid, womanhood, char, charwoman, soul, (obj) female, she; antonyms (n) man, gentleman.
- ЖІНКОПОДІБНИЙ feminine; synonyms (adj) female, womanly, maidenly, pistillate, wifely, feminal, feminate; antonyms (adj) masculine, male.
- жіночий 1. female; synonyms (adj) distaff, feminine, pistillate, (n) lady, woman, girl, (obj) she; antonyms (adj) masculine, (n) male, man, 2. feminine; synonyms (adj) female, womanly, maidenly, wifely, feminal, feminate.
- жменя handful; synonyms (n) fistful, smattering, armful, lump, (adj) company, maniple, several, spoonful, strong, thimbleful, tough, some, spattering.
- жмуток cluster; *synonyms* (*n*) bunch, clump, batch, group, agglomeration, collection, crowd, gang, knot, lot, tuft, (*v*) bundle, huddle, collect, gather; *antonym* (*v*) disperse.
- жнива harvest; *synonyms* (n) crop, fruit, ingathering, produce, profit, yield, (v) gain, gather, glean, amass, collect, garner, get, pick, reap.
- жовтий yellow; synonyms (adj) jaundiced, amber, chicken, chickenhearted, fearful, xanthous, craven, spineless, yellowish, flavous, golden, (n) coward, (adv) cowardly.
- ЖОВТОГАРЯЧИЙ orange (апельсин); synonyms (adj) amber, ocher, orangey, orangish, tawny, ginger, red, (n) orangeness, lemon, etc, lime, apricot, bittersweet, coral, peach.
- **ЖОВТОК** yellow (жовтий); synonyms (adj) jaundiced, amber, chicken, chickenhearted, fearful, xanthous, craven, spineless, yellowish, flavous, golden, (n) coward, (adv) cowardly.
- жовч 1. gall; synonyms (n) anger, bitterness, cheek, audacity, acerbity, acrimony, cheekiness, crust, freshness, grate, (v) annoy, chafe, fret, irk, irritate, 2. bile; synonyms (n) gall, ebullition, ferment, fume, pucker, fury, indignation, rage, malice, antipathy, colera, dislike, hatred, offense, rancor.
- **\*\*KOBUHICTL 1.** gall; *synonyms* (*n*) anger, bitterness, cheek, audacity, acerbity, acrimony, cheekiness, crust, freshness, grate, (*v*) annoy, chafe, fret, irk, irritate, **2**. bile; *synonyms* (*n*) gall, ebullition, ferment, fume, pucker, fury, indignation, rage, malice, antipathy, colera, dislike, hatred, offense, rancor.
- жоден 1. none; synonyms (adj) nil, no, 2. neither; synonym (conj) nother, 3. no; synonyms (n) refusal, rejection, denial, number, nix, rebuff, nobelium, ordinal, (adv) nay, (adj) zero, naught, none, non, nul.
- ЖОДНИЙ 1. none; synonyms (adj) nil, no, 2. neither; synonym (conj) nother.
- жокей jockey; synonyms (n) equestrian, horseman, rider, cavalier, conjuror, (v) cheat, beguile, defraud, chicane, chouse, manage, maneuver, manipulate, screw, beat.

- **ЖОЛОБ** trunk; *synonyms* (*n*) stem, boot, torso, body, bole, proboscis, snout, stalk, box, stock, case, house, luggage, nose, stirps.
- ЖОНАТИЙ married; synonyms (adj) marital, wedded, conjugal, matrimonial, connubial, nuptial; antonyms (adj) single, unmarried.
- жорсткий 1. hard; synonyms (adj) austere, bad, difficult, grave, severe, strong, arduous, callous, cruel, grueling, knotty, tough, (adv) firm, (v) acute, (n) rough; antonyms (adj) easy, soft, kind, merciful, simple, soggy, tender, yielding, (adv) gently, lightly, 2. rigid; synonyms (adj) harsh, fixed, hard, inflexible, stiff, set, strict, exacting, formal, rigorous, stern, tense, tight, determined, resolute; antonyms (adi) flexible, elastic, 3, harsh; synonyms (adj) grating, sharp, bitter, coarse, crude, discordant, grim, unkind, acrid, biting, brutal, extreme, gruff, abrupt, (n) dissonant; antonyms (adj) smooth, gentle, harmonious, lenient, pleasant, melodious, sweet, 4. stiff; synonyms (adj) rigid, numb, solid, sturdy, awkward, buckram, ceremonious, potent, prim, starchy, (n) stark, cadaver, corpse, body, remains; antonyms (adj) relaxed, floppy, supple, free, pliable.
- жорстокий 1. cruel; synonyms (adj) barbarous, brutal, hard, harsh, heartless, unkind, bitter, bloody, atrocious, biting, fierce, inhuman, merciless, ruthless, savage; antonyms (adj) gentle, kind, merciful, humane, liberal, sympathetic, 2. brutal; synonyms (adj) beastly, barbaric, bestial, cruel, truculent, vicious, barbarian, boarish, rugged, tough, ferocious, oppressive, pitiless, rigorous, violent, 3. fierce; synonyms (adj) acute, furious, grim, nasty, angry, ardent, boisterous, fervent, fervid, intense, wicked, fell, fiery, impetuous, (v) vehement; antonym (adj) mild, 4. severe; synonyms (adj) austere, rigid, inclement, rough, arduous, bad, cutting, heavy, serious, strict, caustic, critical, difficult, exacting, (v) poignant, antonyms (adj) lenient, slight, easy, lax, 5. outrageous; synonyms (adj) exorbitant, inordinate, monstrous, ridiculous, offensive, gross, excessive, extravagant, absurd, awful, disgusting, dreadful, extortionate, hideous, horrid; antonyms (adj) sensible, acceptable,
- жорстокість 1. cruelty; synonyms (n) brutality, barbarity, cruelness, oppression, ferociousness, ferocity, harshness, mercilessness, ruthlessness, tyranny, violence, sadism, barbarism, abuse, fierceness; antonyms (n) compassion, kindness, friendliness, gentleness, 2. severity; synonyms (n) cruelty, austerity, rigor, asperity, inclemency, intensity, roughness, gravity, difficulty, grimness, hardness, hardship, inflexibility, rigorousness, rigour; antonyms (n) leniency, clemency, flexibility, pleasantness.
- журитися worry; synonyms (v) torment, trouble, bother, distress, tease, annoy, care, disturb, fear, molest, (n) concern, burden, harass, pain, fuss; antonyms (v) soothe, reassure, (n) calmness, reassurance.
- ЖУРЛИВИЙ sad; synonyms (adj) dreary, dismal, distressing, gloomy, miserable, mournful, pitiable, pitiful, bad, bleak, dejected, deplorable, depressed, depressing, disconsolate; antonyms (adj) happy, cheerful, joyful, brave, cheery, composed.

- журнал 1. journal; *synonyms* (*n*) diary, book, magazine, newspaper, periodical, ephemeris, chronicle, log, record, annals, calendar, organ, (*adj*) daybook, daily, diurnal, **2**. magazine; *synonyms* (*n*) journal, cartridge, clip, entrepot, mag, comic, depository, arsenal, monthly, pamphlet, weekly, repertory, review, storehouse, (*v*) store.
- **ЖУРНА**JIICT journalist; synonyms (n) reporter, writer, author, chronicler, diarist, newscaster.
- журналістика journalism; *synonyms* (*n*) press, author, essayist, correspondent, literature, litterateur, prose, text, writer, writing, copy.
- **ЖЮРІ** jury; *synonyms* (*n*) board, panel, adjudicators, group, team, council, venire.

## 3

- 3 1. with; synonyms (prep) by, for, alongside, among, plus, (adv) on, beside, (adj) including, (n) withe, 2. about; synonyms (prep) encircling, encompassing, circa, concerning, (adv) around, approximately, almost, nearly, most, roughly, in, nearby, nigh, (adj) some, near; antonyms (prep) exactly, precisely, 3. off; synonyms (adv) forth, beyond, over, aside, gone, abreast, (adj) away, bad, putrid, remote, down, rotten, wide, (int) out, begone; antonym (adj) fresh, 4. out; synonyms (adv) off, forward, abroad, outwards, (v) reveal, disclose, discover, impart, (adj) extinct, outside, absent, outward; antonym (prep) inside.
- 3a 1. behind; synonyms (prep) after, abaft, (adv) backward, backwards, late, later, aback, beyond, (n) backside, bottom, buttocks, can, posterior, (adj) back, rear; antonyms (adv) ahead, early, fore, 2. at; synonyms (prep) in, a, (n) astatine, (adv) on, along, (prf) all, completely, wholly, (adj) entertainment, levee, party, reception, conversazione, home, soiree, 3. after; synonyms (prep) following, since, (adv) next, subsequently, then, when, afterward, afterwards, behind, (adj) subsequent, 4. by; synonyms (prep) beside, at, of, about, per, with, (adv) aside, away, past, through, apart, via, (adv, prep) alongside, (adj) over, 5. beyond; synonyms (prep) above, (adv) further, without, besides, by, farther, more, abroad, before, yonder, (adj) across; antonym (prep) within.
- **3AAPEIIITOBYBATH** arrest; *synonyms* (n) stop, check, halt, apprehension, custody, hold, detention, (v) capture, catch, apprehend, collar, delay, detain, get, hinder; *antonyms* (v) release, discharge.
- заарештувати arrest; synonyms (n) stop, check, halt, apprehension, custody, hold, detention, (v) capture, catch, apprehend, collar, delay, detain, get, hinder; antonyms (v) release, discharge.
- 3a6aba 1. amusement; synonyms (n) distraction, diversion, entertainment, pastime, pleasure, recreation, sport, enjoyment, hobby, joy, laughter, play, dissipation, delight, festivity; antonyms (n) sadness, boredom, 2. fun; synonyms (adj) amusing, entertaining, funny, (n) amusement, frolic, comedy, humor, jest, merriment,

- mirth, romp, relaxation, gaiety, game, (v) banter; antonym (n) misery.
- **ЗАБАВНИЙ** amusing; *synonyms* (*adj*) funny, entertaining, fun, humorous, pleasant, agreeable, comical, diverting, enjoyable, hilarious, laughable, pleasing, risible, readable, (*n*) witty; *antonyms* (*adj*) dull, boring, tragic.
- **забарвлення 1**. colour; *synonyms* (*n*) coloration, coloring, colouring, semblance, vividness, (*v*) color, discolor, discolour, distort, tinge, **2**. marking; *synonyms* (*n*) mark, earmark, brand, crisscross, marker, grading, stamping, cross, labeling, distinction, grade, labelling, blazing, chump, fool.
- **3AGE3IIE4EHHЯ** provision; *synonyms* (*n*) arrangement, condition, clause, proviso, stock, article, board, requirement, stipulation, store, maintenance, (*v*) preparation, feed, cater, supply; *antonym* (*n*) lack.
- 3a6e3πeчyвatu 1. provide; synonyms (v) give, contribute, furnish, offer, accommodate, administer, afford, cater, equip, supply, allow, fit, endow, outfit, nourish, 2. assure; synonyms (v) guarantee, certify, secure, affirm, ascertain, ensure, persuade, promise, reassure, satisfy, vouch, confirm, convince, cover, (n) warrant, 3. ensure; synonyms (v) assure, check, insure, control, determine, safeguard, see, 4. secure; synonyms (v) close, fix, preserve, fasten, acquire, attain, fast, gain, get, (adj) safe, firm, certain, confident, attach, bind; antonyms (v) lose, detach, (adj) insecure, vulnerable, loose, unsafe.
- **ЗАБИВАТИ** ram (баран); synonyms (n) tup, (v) beat, cram, crash, drive, jam, pack, push, force, fill, bump, pound, press, squeeze, stuff.
- **ЗАБИРАННЯ** withdrawal; *synonyms* (n) removal, retirement, retreat, secession, departure, defection, desertion, recession, backdown, retraction, repeal, recall, exit, exodus, (v) subtraction.
- **забити** hurt; *synonyms* (v) pain, wound, afflict, injure, ail, cost, (*adj*) evil, (n) harm, damage, detriment, ache, disadvantage, abuse, distress, lesion; *antonyms* (v) encourage, (*adj*) uninjured, unhurt.
- **3AGIM** killing; *synonyms* (v) captivating, fascinating, (n) homicide, carnage, manslaughter, assassination, bloodshed, cleanup, kill, massacre, murder, (adj) fatal, draining, deadly, pernicious.
- **3AFOFOH** prejudice; *synonyms* (n) bias, disadvantage, partiality, discrimination, hurt, preconception, bigotry, detriment, slant, inclination, (v) harm, influence, damage, predispose, injure; *antonyms* (n) tolerance, fairness.
- **3AGOPFOBAHICTЬ** score; *synonyms* (*n*) mark, bill, count, scratch, line, groove, scotch, account, check, debt, (*v*) notch, cut, tally, achieve, dash.
- 3ΑБΟΡΓΥΒΑΤΗ owe; synonyms (v) must, behoove, contract, shall, behind, ducking, incur, (adj) indebted; antonym (v) pay.
- заборона 1. inhibition; synonyms (n) check, prohibition, restraint, suppression, taboo, control, ban, constraint, arrest, forbiddance, repression, restriction, (v) interference, collision, 2. ban; synonyms (n) anathema, bar, veto, command, curse, embargo, banning, (v) forbid, prohibit, banish, exclude, expel, enjoin, illegalize, reject; antonyms (v) permit, allow, sanction, 3. prohibition;

- *synonyms* (*n*) exclusion, inhibition, interdiction, forbidding, injunction, proscription, enjoinment, impediment, interdict, denial, noninclusion, preclusion, refusal; *antonym* (*n*) entitlement.
- **заборонений** 1. forbidden; *synonyms* (*adj*) unlawful, banned, illegal, prohibited, taboo, contraband, illicit, proscribed, verboten; *antonym* (*adj*) acceptable, 2. illegal; *synonyms* (*adj*) criminal, forbidden, unauthorized, illegitimate, lawless, wrongful; *antonyms* (*adj*) legal, lawful, honest, legitimate, official.
- 3AGOPOHЯТИ bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow.
- **ЗАБРУДНЕНИЙ** muddy; synonyms (adj) boggy, cloudy, filthy, turbid, foul, dark, dingy, dull, grimy, marshy, miry, murky, sloppy, (v) dirty, blur; antonyms (adj) clear, clean, dry.
- забруднення 1. contamination; *synonyms* (n) contagion, pollution, contaminant, infection, dirtying, corruption, taint, vitiation, adulteration, depravity, (v) defilement; *antonym* (n) decontamination, 2. pollution; *synonyms* (n) contamination, filth, befoulment, dirtiness, impurity, infamy, foulness, soiling, disgrace, filthiness, violation, dirt, stain, (adj) backsliding, demoralization.
- **3aбyвати** forget; *synonyms* (*v*) disregard, leave, bury, ignore, neglect, overlook, fail, abandon, lose, omit, slight, block; *antonym* (*v*) remember.
- **3ABYTM** forget; *synonyms* (v) disregard, leave, bury, ignore, neglect, overlook, fail, abandon, lose, omit, slight, block; *antonym* (v) remember.
- забутий forgotten; synonyms (adj) lost, disregarded, elapsed, past, abandoned, antebellum, antediluvian, baffled, befuddled, bemused, bewildered, beyond, bygone, confounded, confused.
- завада 1. obstacle; synonyms (n) barrier, difficulty, drawback, check, hitch, obstruction, interruption, bar, deterrent, hurdle, let, (v) impediment, hindrance, block, delay, 2. disadvantage; synonyms (n) deprivation, inconvenience, limitation, loss, damage, detriment, failing, fault, flaw, harm, hurt, liability, snag, awkwardness, penalty; antonyms (n) benefit, bonus, value, (v) advantage.
- 3ABAЖATH 1. interfere; synonyms (v) intercede, obstruct, disturb, conflict, clash, hinder, impede, intervene, meddle, tamper, interrupt, contravene, encroach, (n) interpose, (adj) intermeddle, 2. prevent; synonyms (v) anticipate, block, forbid, arrest, avert, avoid, bar, debar, exclude, forestall, hamper, obviate, preclude, check, foil; antonym (v) encourage.
- 3ABJABATH 1. deal; synonyms (n) bargain, buy, agreement, arrangement, covenant, trade, (v) administer, allot, apportion, conduct, contract, cope, distribute, truck, assign; antonym (n) purchase, 2. cause; synonyms (n) case, action, occasion, account, basis, campaign, (v) make, breed, do, induce, allow, arouse, beget, bring, engender; antonym (n) consequence.
- **завдання 1.** task; *synonyms* (*n*) job, assignment, charge, commission, duty, enterprise, labor, project, stint, occupation, activity, business, chore, (*v*) tax, exercise, **2**. job; *synonyms* (*n*) employment, position, work, career,

- matter, post, task, concern, function, line, mission, office, profession, trade, vocation, **3**. assignment; *synonyms* (*n*) allocation, allotment, appointment, assigning, apportionment, assignation, consignment, designation, transfer, conveyance, delivery, errand, grant, problem, **4**. problem; *synonyms* (*n*) bother, conundrum, difficulty, trouble, knot, enigma, riddle, case, poser, dilemma, issue, puzzle, snag, (*v*) question, query.
- **3AB**ÄÄTOK deposit; *synonyms* (n) charge, residue, guarantee, heap, hoard, lees, (v) bank, commit, store, fix, lay, repose, cast, file, leave; *antonym* (v) withdraw.
- завершення 1. completion; synonyms (n) close, accomplishment, achievement, attainment, consummation, finish, closing, conclusion, ending, fulfillment, performance, complement, end, execution, perfection; antonym (n) start, 2. fulfilment, 3. conclusion; synonyms (n) closure, result, cessation, completion, sequel, termination, decision, dissolution, epilogue, finale, last, outcome, resolution, tail, coda; antonyms (n) beginning, opening, preface, 4. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, brief, airless, (v) compact, stop, conclude, (adv) by, about, (n) expiration; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open.
- **завершити** finish; *synonyms* (*v*) end, complete, achieve, execute, accomplish, cease, determine, discontinue, consume, do, (*n*) close, consummate, conclusion, death, conclude; *antonyms* (*v*) start, begin, continue, (*n*) beginning.
- завершувати 1. finish; synonyms (v) end, complete, achieve, execute, accomplish, cease, determine, discontinue, consume, do, (n) close, consummate, conclusion, death, conclude; antonyms (v) start, begin, continue, (n) beginning, 2. integrate; synonyms (v) incorporate, blend, combine, consolidate, fuse, amalgamate, embody, merge, unify, unite, join, mix, coalesce, commingle, desegregate; antonyms (v) separate, exclude, segregate, 3. cap; synonyms (n) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (v) top, beat, limit, surpass, better, 4. conclude; synonyms (v) finish, gather, assume, deduce, resolve, settle, terminate, decide, derive, generalize, judge, reason, stop, understand, suppose, 5. fulfil; synonyms (v) fill, perform, satisfy, fulfill, meet, 6. ultimate; synonyms (adj) last, conclusive, final, supreme, definitive, decisive, elemental, extreme, farthest, furthest, eventual, primary, ending, finishing, (n) maximum; antonyms (adj) opening, first.
- **завжди 1.** always; *synonyms* (*adv*) forever, continuously, whenever, eternally, ever, unceasingly, consistently, constantly, continually, e'er, everlastingly, evermore, hourly, (*adj*) still, eternal; *antonyms* (*adv*) never, erratically, **2.** ever; *synonyms* (*adv*) always, perpetually.
- **ЗАВИВАТИ** wave; *synonyms* (*n*) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (*v*) brandish, flap, flutter, curl, flourish, swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon.
- **3ABUTOK** bob; *synonyms* (*n*) shilling, jump, (*v*) curtsy, dock, bow, toss, dip, bend, bounce, cut, jiggle, reel, tail, tap, trim.

- 3ABIДУВАТИ 1. manage; synonyms (v) conduct, direct, administer, do, govern, accomplish, arrange, control, cope, deal, handle, lead, work, maintain, (n) guide, 2. operate; synonyms (v) act, function, run, employ, go, manage, move, perform, proceed, maneuver, exercise, fly, behave, drive, engage.
- **3aBica** curtain; *synonyms* (*n*) veil, cover, barrier, blind, drapery, screen, drape, mantle, mask, pall, shade, shroud, blanket, (*v*) hide, banquette.
- 3aBit testament; synonyms (n) will, testimonial, testimony, paper, parchment, settlement, volition, evidence, bible, certificate, confirmation, credentials, declaration, (v) command, decree.
- Завод 1. works; synonyms (n) factory, plant, workings, mill, manufactory, deeds, 2. plant; synonyms (n) equipment, herb, bush, (v) fix, place, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lay, bury, cultivate, appoint, 3. factory; synonyms (n) business, shop, works, 4. mill; synonyms (n) grind, grinder, machine, engine, gin, notch, implement, instrument, lathe, (v) crush, pulverize, spar, (adf) cent.
- **3ABOJIO, TIBATII** occupy; *synonyms* (v) hold, have, engage, engross, fill, get, absorb, employ, inhabit, invade, possess, conquer, busy, capture, (n) entertain; *antonym* (v) leave.
- **3ABOJIOJIHHH9** occupation; *synonyms* (n) employment, occupancy, business, craft, calling, job, place, affair, career, conquest, function, line, profession, vocation, (v) trade; *antonym* (n) surrender.
- **3ABOPYIIIEHHЯ** unrest; synonyms (n) turmoil, agitation, disquiet, disorder, ferment, fermentation, revolution, tumult, turbulence, commotion, excitement, chaos, disturbance, restlessness, strife; antonyms (n) calm, rest.
- **Завоювання 1.** conquest; *synonyms* (n) victory, conquering, defeat, triumph, achievement, reduction, coup, rout, mastery, occupation, overthrow, subjection, subjugation, success, win; *antonym* (n) surrender, **2.** winning; *synonyms* (adj) attractive, triumphant, victorious, charming, engaging, pleasing, enchanting, lovely, captivating, fetching, taking, successful, appealing, inviting, amiable; *antonym* (adv) losing.
- **3aBTPa** tomorrow; synonyms (adv) kal, never.
- **3AB4ACHO** beforehand; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, ahead, early, previously, aforehand, first, formerly, forward, (*adi*) advance, already, afore.
- 3aB'язувати tie; synonyms (n) band, connection, draw, lace, association, relationship, sleeper, (v) link, bond, attach, bind, join, knot, connect, fasten; antonyms (v) disconnect, untie, undo.
- 3агалом 1. altogether; synonyms (adv) absolutely, all, wholly, completely, entirely, perfectly, purely, simply, totally, ensemble, fully, utterly, generally, quite, thoroughly; antonym (adv) partly, 2. generally; synonyms (adv) altogether, commonly, frequently, broadly, chiefly, usually, approximately, largely, mainly, mostly, principally, customarily, habitually, normally, often; antonyms (adv) narrowly, rarely, specifically.
- **загальний 1**. common; *synonyms* (*adj*) ordinary, coarse, cheap, mutual, usual, vulgar, accustomed, base, ignoble, mean, mediocre, plebeian, public, trivial, (*n*) habitual;

- antonyms (adj) individual, uncommon, rare, unusual, characteristic, one-off, specific, unique, aristocratic, exclusive, extraordinary, infrequent, 2. general; synonyms (adi) common, comprehensive, national, universal, broad, commonplace, current, ecumenical, average, communal, extensive, (n) chief, commander, (v) customary, frequent; antonyms (adj) narrow, (n) particular, 3. generic; synonyms (adj) general, basic, cognate, economy, unadorned, utilitarian, generical, nonexclusive, plain, straightforward, 4. global; synonyms (adj) international, overall, cosmopolitan, worldwide, earthly, total, globose, globular, inclusive, orbicular, planetary, spheric, spherical, terrestrial, world; antonym (adj) local, 5. overall; synonyms (adj) entire, whole, complete, full, aggregate, global, widespread, (adv) generally, everywhere, (n) smock, boilersuit, 6. universal; synonyms (adj) ubiquitous, oecumenical, generic, pervasive, popular, prevalent, omnipresent, 7. net; synonyms (adj) final, last, (n) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, (v) mesh, clear, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; antonym (v) gross, 8. nominal; synonyms (adj) titular, formal, token, minimal, minimum, nominative, (v) cognominal; antonym (adj)
- **Загальновідомий** notorious; *synonyms* (*adj*) famous, infamous, known, illustrious, disreputable, egregious, flagrant, celebrated, noted, prominent, famed, familiar, well-known, (v) notable, (n) errant; *antonym* (*adj*) unknown.
- **загальнодоступний** popular; *synonyms* (*adj*) common, general, current, fashionable, democratic, customary, known, plain, pop, celebrated, notorious, prominent, famous, familiar, (*v*) favorite; *antonyms* (*adj*) unpopular, aristocratic. disliked.
- 3ΑΓΑ/ΙΒΗΟΠΡΙΫΗΗΤΙΥΙ΄ 1. conventional; synonyms (adj) formal, orthodox, accepted, common, customary, everyday, conservative, decorous, established, habitual, normal, ordinary, routine, (ν) commonplace, familiar; antonyms (adj) unconventional, radical, relaxed, unusual, original, rebellious, unorthodox, 2. orthodox; synonyms (adj) canonical, conventional, sound, faithful, devout, legitimate, regular, proper, right, traditional, usual, honest, typical.
- **3AΓAP6AHHЯ** grab; *synonyms* (*v*) capture, get, snatch, appropriate, clasp, clutch, fascinate, grapple, rob, seize, assume, attract, (*n*) arrest, catch, seizure.
- **загибель 1**. destruction; *synonyms* (*n*) death, collapse, ruin, abolition, damage, demolition, desolation, devastation, downfall, end, bane, depredation, disaster, (*v*) defeat, doom; *antonyms* (*n*) construction, creation, preservation, protection, conservation, formation, reparation, **2**. collapse; *synonyms* (*n*) crash, breakdown, fall, subsidence, bust, debacle, (*v*) break, slump, buckle, crack, crumble, crumple, faint, flop, burst, **3**. death (смерть); *synonyms* (*n*) demise, expiration, close, exit, cessation, decease, departure, dissolution, dying, fate, loss, mortality, passing, conclusion, (*adj*) quietus; *antonyms* (*n*) birth, existence, delivery.

- **3arih** band; *synonyms* (*n*) cluster, party, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, (*y*) ring, combine.
- **3**AΓJIИБЛЕНІСТЬ absorption; *synonyms* (n) assimilation, attention, concentration, inhalation, engrossment, ingestion, preoccupation, abstraction, amalgamation, interest.
- **3AΓJIИБJIEHHЯ 1.** socket; *synonyms* (*n*) cavity, alveolus, sleeve, hollow, pocket, slot, recess, sheath, compass, employment, fitment, fob, overshot, pouch, province, **2.** recession; *synonyms* (*n*) decline, depression, fall, niche, slump, corner, receding.
- **3AΓHY3/IVBATU** bit; *synonyms* (*n*) crumb, morsel, piece, atom, drop, fleck, fragment, moment, part, portion, shred, snatch, (*v*) curb, scrap, scantling.
- заголовок 1. heading; synonyms (n) caption, bearing, drift, head, title, course, direction, tack, name, chief, header, leading, line, way, aim, 2. title; synonyms (n) call, designation, claim, designate, appellation, denomination, epithet, interest, championship, heading, (v) style, term, entitle, (adj) right, ownership, 3. headline; synonyms (n) headrope, (v) emphasize, feature, publicize, stress.
- **3AΓOPTATH** lap; *synonyms* (n) circle, circuit, fold, coil, knee, orbit, (v) lick, overlap, bind, (adv) compass, encircle, encompass, embrace, enclose, beset.
- **3AΓΟΡЯΤИ** burn; *synonyms* (*v*) bite, glow, blaze, incinerate, scorch, sting, bake, beam, boil, cremate, flare, ignite, sunburn, (*n*) fire, (*adj*) flush; *antonym* (*v*) dawdle.
- **ЗАГОСТРЕНИЙ** pointed; *synonyms* (*adj*) penetrating, keen, poignant, acute, piquant, cutting, marked, pithy, biting, acuminate, barbed, prickly, pungent, sharp, short; *antonym* (*adj*) rounded.
- **3AΓOTIBJI9** provision; *synonyms* (n) arrangement, condition, clause, proviso, stock, article, board, requirement, stipulation, store, maintenance, (ν) preparation, feed, cater, supply; *antonym* (n) lack.
- **ЗАГОТОВЛЯТИ 1**. cure; *synonyms* (*n*) remedy, antidote, medicine, salve, curative, curing, healing, therapy, (*v*) correct, help, treat, heal, pickle, preserve, restore, **2**. provide; *synonyms* (*v*) give, contribute, furnish, offer, accommodate, administer, afford, cater, equip, supply, allow, fit, endow, outfit, nourish.
- **загрожувати** threaten; *synonyms* (*v*) menace, bully, endanger, intimidate, loom, offer, imperil, jeopardize, peril, approach, foreshadow, portend, browbeat, impend, (*n*) threat; *antonym* (*v*) help.
- **3arpo3a 1.** threat; *synonyms* (n) menace, danger, hazard, peril, risk, coercion, jeopardy, omen, scourge, terror, warning; *antonym* (n) safety, **2**. danger; *synonyms* (n) chance, threat, trouble, precariousness, slipperiness, difficulty, insecurity, exposure, hardship; *antonym* (n) security.
- ЗАГРОЗЛИВИЙ 1. grave; synonyms (adj) austere, critical, serious, severe, solemn, earnest, bad, dangerous, deep, grand, important, sad, sedate, (v) acute, engrave; antonyms (adj) mild, frivolous, funny, 2. nasty; synonyms (adj) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, awful, mean, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, distasteful, evil, hurtful, obnoxious, raw; antonyms (adj) agreeable, kind, pleasant, nice, charitable, lovely, 3.

- ugly; *synonyms* (*adj*) nasty, forbidding, frightful, gruesome, hideous, homely, repulsive, surly, offensive, atrocious, deformed, despicable, grotesque, horrible, monstrous; *antonyms* (*adj*) beautiful, attractive, goodlooking, flowing, ornamental.
- **загубити** lose; *synonyms* (v) drop, forfeit, mislay, sacrifice, fail, clear, hurt, regress, retrogress, destroy, misplace, recede, suffer, waste, escape; *antonyms* (v) gain, find, acquire, earn, get, obtain, recover, secure, win, beat, defeat, keep, succeed.
- 3a 1. behind; synonyms (prep) after, abaft, (adv) backward, backwards, late, later, aback, beyond, (n) backside, bottom, buttocks, can, posterior, (adj) back, rear; antonyms (adv) ahead, early, fore, 2. arse; synonyms (n) anus, bum, arsehole, ass, asshole, behind, butt, derriere, fanny, fundament, hindquarters, keister, nates, prat, rump.
- Задача 1. task; synonyms (n) job, assignment, charge, commission, duty, enterprise, labor, project, stint, occupation, activity, business, chore, (v) tax, exercise, 2. problem; synonyms (n) bother, conundrum, difficulty, trouble, knot, enigma, matter, riddle, case, poser, dilemma, issue, puzzle, (v) question, query, 3. goal; synonyms (n) aim, butt, design, destination, end, purpose, basket, ambition, intent, intention, object, objective, target, aspiration, limit.
- **задній 1**. rear; *synonyms* (*adj*) back, erect, after, (*n*) posterior, tail, backside, behind, bottom, (*v*) breed, nurture, raise, educate, foster, nurse, build; *antonyms* (*adj*) fore, (*n*) front, **2**. back; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, backward, (*n*) rear, (*adj*) assist, (*v*) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) face, (*v*) oppose, advance.
- **задовільний** satisfactory; *synonyms* (adj) enough, adequate, competent, sufficient, acceptable, good, ample, decent, fair, tolerable, presentable, pleasing, plenty, respectable, commensurate; antonyms (adj) unsatisfactory, inadequate, unacceptable.
- Задовільно satisfactorily; synonyms (adv) adequately, well, fully, amply, enough, satisfyingly, sufficiently, aright, (v) favorably; antonyms (adv) insufficiently, unsatisfactorily.
- задоволений 1. glad; synonyms (adj) contented, cheerful, jubilant, gay, blithe, content, delighted, festive, delightful, bright, genial, willing, beaming, blissful, happy; antonym (adj) sad, 2. happy (щасливий); synonyms (adj) fortunate, felicitous, buoyant, gleeful, gratified, carefree, cheery, convivial, favorable, glad, lucky, pleasant, appropriate, (n) auspicious, blessed; antonyms (adj) unhappy, dejected, depressed, miserable, sorrowful, 3, satisfied: synonyms (v) convinced. (adi) full, pleased, certain, confident, sure, complacent, persuaded, fulfilled, sated, satiated, easy, positive, quenched; antonym (adj) frustrated, 4. content; synonyms (n) capacity, contentment, matter, meaning, subject, substance, contentedness, happiness, percentage, (v) appease, please, satisfy, suffice, delight, gratify; antonyms (adj) tormented, discontented, dissatisfied, rebellious, (v) discontent, upset, 5. pleased; synonyms (adj) elated, joyful, thankful, appreciative, comfortable,

- overjoyed, satisfied, grateful; *antonyms* (adj) displeased, angry, annoyed, worried.
- задоволення 1. enjoyment; synonyms (n) delight, pleasure, appreciation, gratification, comfort, amusement, delectation, gusto, happiness, relish, satisfaction, diversion, bliss, ecstasy, entertainment; antonyms (n) boredom, dislike, 2. delight; synonyms (n) joy, rejoicing, gladness, elation, (v) charm, amuse, please, ravish, captivate, cheer, enrapture, gratify, transport, content, divert; antonyms (n) sorrow, misery, (v) depress, displease, 3. satisfaction; synonyms (n) amends, complacency, enjoyment, reparation, atonement, compensation, discharge, ease, expiation, fulfillment, recompense, redress, observance, indemnification, (v) contentment; antonyms (n) dissatisfaction, displeasure, aggravation, discontent, 4. pleasure; synonyms (n) fun, mirth, inclination, fruition, pleasance, desire, festivity, cheerfulness, glee, liking, mind, rapture, thrill, will, (adj) delicacy; antonyms (n) anger, irritation, ache, nuisance, 5. content; synonyms (n) capacity, matter, meaning, subject, substance, contentedness, percentage, (adj) contented, happy, fulfilled, pleased, (v) appease, satisfy, suffice, satiate; antonyms (adj) tormented, unhappy, discontented, dissatisfied, rebellious, (v) upset.
- **ЗАДОВОЛЬНИТИ** satisfy; *synonyms* (*v*) please, content, fill, indulge, meet, persuade, sate, satiate, appease, answer, assuage, convince, delight, (*adj*) suffice, do; *antonyms* (*v*) dissatisfy, disappoint, displease, intensify.
- Задовольняти 1. satisfy; synonyms (v) please, content, fill, indulge, meet, persuade, sate, satiate, appease, answer, assuage, convince, delight, (adj) suffice, do; antonyms (v) dissatisfy, disappoint, displease, intensify,
  2. content; synonyms (n) capacity, contentment, matter, meaning, subject, substance, contentedness, happiness, percentage, (adj) contented, happy, fulfilled, pleased, (v) satisfy, gratify; antonyms (adj) tormented, unhappy, discontented, dissatisfied, rebellious, (v) discontent, upset.
- 3aдym 1. intention (Hamip); synonyms (n) idea, aim, end, intent, design, drift, goal, purpose, cause, animus, mind, motive, object, objective, plan, 2. conception; synonyms (n) notion, concept, creation, thought, view, apprehension, belief, comprehension, fancy, image, imagination, impression, invention, perception, understanding; antonym (n) misconception, 3. design; synonyms (n) scheme, conception, drawing, arrangement, device, contrivance, copy, blueprint, (v) conceive, contrive, sketch, construct, arrange, contemplate, intend; antonym (n) chance, 4. plan; synonyms (n) map, figure, chart, outline, pattern, invent, form, intention, method, (v) devise, plot, draft, engineer, mean, model.
- **заєць** rabbit (кріль, кролик); *synonyms* (n) coney, cony, hare, lapin, shuttle, coward, bacterium, das, dassie, delinquent, hyrax, pika, (*adi*) warren.
- **ЗАЖУРЕНИЙ** sad; *synonyms* (*adj*) dreary, dismal, distressing, gloomy, miserable, mournful, pitiable, pitiful, bad, bleak, dejected, deplorable, depressed,

- depressing, disconsolate; *antonyms* (*adj*) happy, cheerful, joyful, brave, cheery, composed.
- **заздалегідь 1**. beforehand; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, ahead, early, previously, aforehand, first, formerly, forward, (*ady*) advance, already, afore, **2**. previously; *synonyms* (*adv*) beforehand, antecedently, earlier, once, fore.
- **3A3ДЕЛЕГІДЬ** previously; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, already, beforehand, antecedently, earlier, formerly, once, fore, ahead.
- **заздрісний** jealous; *synonyms* (*adj*) covetous, distrustful, envious, suspicious, resentful, invidious, green, grudging.
- **3A3**Д**PICTЬ** jealousy; *synonyms* (*n*) suspicion, competition, contention, distrust, qualm, scruple, doubt, challenge, contest, diffidence, dissatisfaction, emulation, enmity, jealoushood, misdoubt.
- **3A3IXAHHЯ** invasion; *synonyms* (n) attack, assault, aggression, incursion, inroad, descent, foray, influx, intrusion, encroachment, infringement, occupation, raid, breach, charge; *antonyms* (n) retreat, surrender.
- 3a3HaBatu 1. experience; *synonyms* (n) event, episode, happening, (v) encounter, endure, suffer, examine, enjoy, feel, have, know, live, meet, receive, (*adj*) see; *antonym* (n) inexperience, 2. suffer; *synonyms* (v) bear, abide, accept, brook, experience, stand, undergo, permit, smart, sustain, tolerate, pay, bide, (*adj*) allow, ail, 3. sustain; *synonyms* (v) support, carry, keep, continue, hold, maintain, preserve, prop, relieve, help, strengthen, affirm, assist, back, bolster.
- 3A3HA€TьСЯ experienced; synonyms (adj) accomplished, capable, educated, competent, expert, knowledgeable, old, practiced, proficient, skillful, sophisticated, trained, able, conversant, informed; antonyms (adj) inexperienced, naive, immature.
- **3A3HAT***M* experience; *synonyms* (*n*) event, episode, happening, (*v*) encounter, endure, suffer, examine, enjoy, feel, have, know, live, meet, receive, (*adj*) see; *antonym* (*n*) inexperience.
- **3A3HAYATI** note; *synonyms* (*n*) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, (*v*) notice, mind, look, detect; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- **3AÏKAHHЯ** hesitation; *synonyms* (*n*) hesitance, faltering, delay, hesitate, diffidence, hesitancy, indecision, misgiving, pause, qualm, reluctance, (*v*) doubt, falter, fear, hesitating; *antonyms* (*n*) certainty, persuasiveness.
- 3АЙВИЙ 1. excessive; synonyms (adj) inordinate, exaggerated, intense, enormous, exorbitant, extravagant, extreme, exuberant, immoderate, profuse, superfluous, undue, unreasonable, huge, lavish; antonyms (adj) reasonable, moderate, affordable, 2. odd; synonyms (adj) grotesque, exceptional, funny, abnormal, curious, droll, eccentric, extraordinary, singular, strange, chance, novel, anomalous, bizarre, fantastic; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, even, typical, 3. needless; synonyms (adj) gratuitous, unnecessary, dispensable, excessive, meaningless, pointless, preventable, wanton; antonym (adj) necessary, 4. surplus; synonyms (adj) extra, odd, redundant, (n) excess, remainder, balance,

- overabundance, surfeit, glut, remnant, overflow, plethora, leftover, residue, (adv) over; antonyms (n) lack, shortage, scarcity, 5. redundant; synonyms (adj) needless, pleonastic, spare, surplus, wordy, additional, repetitious, superabundant, supererogatory, supernumerary, verbose, windy, 6. spare; synonyms (adj) reserve, slender, save, slight, lean, slim, thin, bare, frugal, (v) free, meager, exempt, economize, excuse, (n) backup.
- **ЗАЙМАННЯ** occupation; *synonyms* (*n*) employment, occupancy, business, craft, calling, job, place, affair, career, conquest, function, line, profession, vocation, (*v*) trade; *antonym* (*n*) surrender.
- 3aймaти occupy; synonyms (v) hold, have, engage, engross, fill, get, absorb, employ, inhabit, invade, possess, conquer, busy, capture, (n) entertain; antonym (ν) leave.
- 3AŬMATUCЯ 1. do; synonyms (v) act, cheat, commit, accomplish, complete, conduct, perform, achieve, make, practice, defraud, answer, arrange, (n) function, occasion; antonyms (v) neglect, unmake, 2. pursue; synonyms (v) chase, follow, dog, hunt, prosecute, course, haunt, hound, persist, stalk, tail, court, keep, continue, engage.
- **зайнятий 1.** busy; *synonyms* (*adj*) active, brisk, assiduous, engaged, occupied, agile, crowded, industrious, meddlesome, officious, live, diligent, earnest, (*v*) occupy, employ; *antonyms* (*adj*) idle, free, inactive, **2.** occupied; *synonyms* (*adj*) busy, employed, absorbed, engrossed, working, affianced, betrothed, concerned, involved; *antonyms* (*adj*) empty, vacant, available, uninhabited, **3.** engaged; *synonyms* (*adj*) reserved, pledged, bespoken, booked, immersed, intent, rapt.
- 3AŬHSTICTЬ 1. employment; synonyms (n) business, occupation, trade, use, career, duty, engagement, service, exploitation, avocation, (v) application, employ, calling, profession, (adj) work; antonym (n) unemployment, 2. occupation; synonyms (n) employment, occupancy, craft, job, place, affair, conquest, function, line, vocation, concern, activity, capture, invasion, office; antonym (n) surrender.
- **3AŬHЯТТЯ** employment; *synonyms* (*n*) business, occupation, trade, use, career, duty, engagement, service, exploitation, avocation, (*v*) application, employ, calling, profession, (*adī*) work; *antonym* (*n*) unemployment.
- 3АКІНЧЕНИЙ 1. closed; synonyms (v) close, tight, accurate, adjoining, attentive, (adj) blind, blocked, finished, shut, congested, fastened, exclusive, insular, stopped, airtight; antonym (adj) open, 2. finished; synonyms (v) done, (adj) complete, completed, ended, perfect, consummate, absolute, accomplished, polished, ripe, ruined, spent, round, capable, (adv) over; antonyms (adj) unfinished, incomplete, remaining, rough, 3. complete; synonyms (adj) whole, full, stark, all, (v) accomplish, achieve, finish, execute, act, attain, cease, clear, conclude, effect, fulfill; antonyms (adj) partial, abridged, shortened, sketchy, lacking, narrow, qualified, (v) neglect, 4. perfect; synonyms (adj) exact, utter, entire, faultless, thorough, exquisite, integral, blameless,

- clean, correct, flawless, ideal, immaculate, pure, (v) mature; *antonyms* (*adj*) imperfect, faulty, flawed.
- закінчення 1. conclusion; synonyms (n) closure, close, end, result, cessation, completion, sequel, termination, decision, dissolution, ending, epilogue, finale, finish, (v) closing; antonyms (n) beginning, start, opening, preface,
   2. ending; synonyms (n) conclusion, death, stop, demise, abolition, breakup, closedown, culmination, discontinuance, suffix, (adi) last, concluding, dying, final, ultimate; antonym (n) middle, 3. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, brief, airless, (v) compact, conclude, bar, (adv) by, about, (n) expiration; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open, 4. leaving; synonyms (n) departure, leave, exit, desertion, going, farewell, abandonment, departing; antonym (n) arrival.
- **закінчити** finish; *synonyms* (*v*) end, complete, achieve, execute, accomplish, cease, determine, discontinue, consume, do, (*n*) close, consummate, conclusion, death, conclude; *antonyms* (*v*) start, begin, continue, (*n*) beginning.
- закінчувати 1. complete; synonyms (adj) perfect, absolute, consummate, whole, full, stark, accomplished, all, (v) accomplish, achieve, close, finish, execute, act, attain; antonyms (adj) incomplete, partial, unfinished, abridged, shortened, sketchy, lacking, narrow, qualified, (v) neglect, 2. conclude; synonyms (v) complete, gather, assume, cease, deduce, determine, end, resolve, settle, terminate, decide, derive, do, generalize, judge; antonyms (v) start, begin, 3, finish; synonyms (v) discontinue, consume, stop, culminate, deplete, exhaust, (n) conclusion, death, conclude, ending, finale, glaze, accomplishment, coating, completion; antonyms (v) continue, (n) beginning, 4. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, brief, airless, (v) compact, bar, block, fold, (adv) by, about, (n) expiration; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open.
- **закінчуватися 1.** end; *synonyms* (*n*) close, aim, closure, destination, conclusion, death, cause, demise, object, (*v*) cease, complete, finish, discontinue, conclude, (*prep*) consequence; *antonyms* (*n*) beginning, maintenance, opening, middle, (*v*) start, begin, continue, **2**. conclude; *synonyms* (*v*) gather, accomplish, assume, deduce, determine, end, resolve, settle, terminate, decide, derive, do, generalize, judge, reason.
- **заклад** bet; *synonyms* (*v*) gamble, play, lay, risk, venture, (*n*) wager, stake, stakes.
- **Заклик** appeal; *synonyms* (n) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (v) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; *antonyms* (n) unpleasantness, (v) repel.
- **Закликати 1**. appeal; *synonyms* (n) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (v) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; *antonyms* (n) unpleasantness, (v) repel, **2**. call; *synonyms* (v) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, baptize, cite, dub, entitle, (n) appeal, yell, appoint, command; *antonym* (v) dismiss.
- **заклинання** spell; *synonyms* (n) magic, fascination, bout, conjuration, incantation, period, sorcery,

- enchantment, turn, span, bewitchment, space, captivation, attack, (v) charm.
- заклонотаність preoccupation; synonyms (n) absorption, abstraction, obsession, fixation, distraction, engrossment, preoccupancy, prepossession, reverie, anticipation, compulsion.
- **ЗАКЛЮЧНИЙ** final; *synonyms* (*adj*) conclusive, decisive, definite, extreme, latter, definitive, last, ultimate, irrevocable, decided, concluding, eventual, net, peremptory, firm; *antonyms* (*adj*) first, opening, preliminary.
- **Заколисувати** rock; *synonyms* (*n*) boulder, calculus, pillar, (*v*) jar, sway, cradle, jolt, shake, toss, waver, quake, pitch, reel. (*adi*) pebble, stone.
- 3AKOJIOT 1. outbreak; synonyms (n) epidemic, eruption, explosion, burst, onset, outburst, mutiny, attack, flood, rash, rebellion, revolt, spate, spell, storm,
  2. riot; synonyms (n) disturbance, commotion, disorder, insurrection, sedition, tumult, brawl, fight, fray, confusion, debauch, (v) rebel, carouse, (adj) hubbub, uproar.
- **3AKOJIOTHUK** rebel; *synonyms* (n) insurgent, nonconformist, anarchist, dissident, insurrectionist, traitor, (v) mutiny, renegade, arise, disobey, revolt, rise, oppose, (*adj*) mutineer, rebellious; *antonym* (n) conformist.
- **3akoh 1.** law; *synonyms* (*n*) rule, canon, decree, act, edict, regulation, enactment, jurisprudence, justice, order, police, principle, ruling, axiom, directive, **2**. act; *synonyms* (*n*) accomplishment, action, move, play, statute, do, feat, (*v*) achievement, behave, deed, go, perform, acquit, enact, feign; *antonym* (*v*) refrain, **3**. statute; *synonyms* (*n*) law, ordinance, constitution, charter, code, bill, pandect, proclamation.
- **3AKOHU** legislation; *synonyms* (n) lawmaking, legislating, law, conduct, government, gubernation, passage, administration, constitution, nomology.
- **3AKOHHA** lawful; *synonyms* (*adj*) legitimate, legal, just, rightful, constitutional, justifiable, licit, permissible, regular, right, true, equitable, fair, admissible, (*n*) allowable; *antonyms* (*adj*) illegal, unlawful.
- законний 1. legal; synonyms (adj) lawful, sound, valid, juridical, constitutional, judicial, permissible, rightful, true, correct, sanctioned, official, (v) allowable, legitimate, licit; antonyms (adj) ilegal, unlawful, bogus,
   2. legitimate; synonyms (adj) legal, authentic, genuine, just, orthodox, justifiable, logical, real, fair, actual, admissible, allowed, (v) legalize, legitimatize, legitimize; antonyms (adj) banned, informal, illegitimate, invalid, 3. lawful; synonyms (adj) regular, right, equitable, innocent, due, honest. (v) chartered.
- **законність** 1. validity; *synonyms* (*n*) force, truth, authority, legitimacy, soundness, certainty, cogency, effect, power, effectiveness, reality, authenticity, vigor, credibility, hardness, **2**. legitimacy; *synonyms* (*n*) justice, validity, genuineness, fairness, **3**. justice; *synonyms* (*n*) equity, impartiality, integrity, judge, right, judicature, jurist, justness, morality, correctness, court, reasonableness, (*adj*) honesty, just, principle; *antonyms* (*n*) injustice, unfairness.

- **Законодавство** legislation; *synonyms* (*n*) lawmaking, legislating, law, conduct, government, gubernation, passage, administration, constitution, nomology.
- Законодавчий legislative; synonyms (adj) lawmaking, legal, administrative, constitutional, lawgiving, legislatorial, nomothetical, aldermanic, congressional, decreeing, enacting, governmental, judicial, juridical, iurisdictive.
- **3AKOHOMIPHICTb** legitimacy; *synonyms* (*n*) authenticity, justice, validity, genuineness, truth, fairness.
- **Законопроект** bill; synonyms (n) account, beak, advertisement, card, invoice, poster, receipt, act, banknote, check, measure, (v) placard, advertise, charge, list
- **ЗАКОРДОННИЙ** foreign; *synonyms* (*adj*) alien, extraneous, extrinsic, exotic, exterior, external, strange, oversea, adventitious, outlandish, peregrine, remote, unfamiliar, unknown, different; *antonyms* (*adj*) native, familiar, domestic, internal.
- ЗАКОРЕНІЛИЙ confirmed; synonyms (adj) chronic, inveterate, assured, habitual, constant, affirmed, definite, established, fixed, ingrained, set, valid, accustomed; antonyms (adj) unconfirmed, unproven.
- **ЗАКОХАНИЙ** passionate; *synonyms* (*adj*) ardent, hot, angry, animated, burning, excited, fervent, fierce, earnest, amorous, eager, enthusiastic, excitable, (*adv*) fiery, (*v*) impetuous; *antonyms* (*adj*) apathetic, indifferent, mild, passionless.
- **Закреслювання** cancel; *synonyms* (*v*) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (*adj*) abolish, nullify; *antonym* (*v*) validate.
- **Закреслювати** cancel; *synonyms* (*v*) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (*adj*) abolish, nullify; *antonym* (*v*) validate.
- 3ακρивати 1. shut; synonyms (v) close, bar, seal, fasten, exclude, lock, (adj) closed, cut, tight, (n) end, finish, confine; antonym (v) open, 2. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, approximate, narrow, brief, airless, (v) compact, stop, conclude, (adv) by, about, (n) conclusion, expiration; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) start, 3. bar (δap); synonyms (n) barricade, band, line, pub, snag, fence, (v) ban, block, bolt, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose, restrict; antonyms (v) permit, allow.
- **Закриватися** shut; *synonyms* (*v*) close, bar, seal, fasten, exclude, lock, (*adj*) closed, cut, tight, (*n*) end, finish, confine; *antonym* (*v*) open.
- **3AKPUTH 1.** close; *synonyms* (*adj*) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, (v) compact, stop, conclude, (*adv*) by, about, (*n*) end, finish, conclusion; *antonyms* (*adj*) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open, start, **2.** shut; *synonyms* (v) close, bar, seal, fasten, exclude, lock, (*adj*) closed, cut, (*n*) confine.
- **закритий 1**. closed; *synonyms* (v) close, tight, accurate, adjoining, attentive, (*adj*) blind, blocked, finished, shut, congested, fastened, exclusive, insular, stopped, airtight; *antonym* (*adj*) open, **2**. shut; *synonyms* (v) bar, seal,

- fasten, exclude, lock, (adj) closed, cut, (n) end, finish, confine, **3**. close; **synonyms** (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, approximate, narrow, brief, airless, (v) compact, stop, conclude, block, (adv) by, about, (n) conclusion, expiration; **antonyms** (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) start.
- 3AKPHTTЯ 1. closure; synonyms (n) closing, close, blockade, blockage, closedown, ending, occlusion, stop, stoppage, plug, conclusion, end, period, (v) cloture, halt; antonym (n) inauguration, 2. closing; synonyms (adj) final, last, ultimate, concluding, terminal, (n) closure, finish, completion, shutdown, shutting, windup; antonym (n) opening, 3. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, brief, airless, (v) compact, conclude, bar, (adv) by, about, (n) expiration; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open, start.
- 3AKPIII,JIOBATII fix; synonyms (v) establish, assign, determine, fasten, settle, define, anchor, adjust, arrange, set, clamp, (n) bind, (adj) ascertain, confirm, attach; antonyms (v) break, unfasten.
- 3AKPIIIJITI 1. back; synonyms (adv) before, backward, (n) rear, (adj) assist, (v) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; antonyms (n) face, (v) front, oppose, advance, 2. secure; synonyms (v) close, fix, preserve, fasten, acquire, assure, attain, ensure, fast, (adj) safe, firm, certain, confident, attach, bind; antonyms (v) lose, detach, (adj) insecure, vulnerable, loose, unsafe.
- 3AKYCOHHA bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow.
- **3AKYTOK** corner; *synonyms* (n) bend, angle, turn, coign, dilemma, hole, niche, nook, predicament, quandary, recess, jam, fork, plight, fix.
- 3AJI 1. hall; synonyms (n) corridor, foyer, lobby, mansion, vestibule, auditorium, anteroom, court, castle, concourse, antechamber, atrium, dorm, dormitory, (v) passage, 2. saloon; synonyms (n) bar, pub, barroom, pothouse, inn, sedan, taphouse, taproom, tavern, ginmill.
- 3AJIA hall; synonyms (n) corridor, foyer, lobby, mansion, vestibule, auditorium, anteroom, court, castle, concourse, antechamber, atrium, dorm, dormitory, (ν) passage.
- **ЗАЛАГОДЖУВАТИ** adjust; *synonyms* (v) temper, accommodate, adapt, align, acclimatize, balance, fit, fix, reconcile, regulate, set, alter, arrange, (adj) dress, (n) square.
- **залежати** depend; *synonyms* (v) dangle, hang, count, rely, calculate, confide, reckon, stay, suspend, attend.
- **ЗАЛЕЖНИЙ** dependent; *synonyms* (*adj*) subject, subordinate, contingent, addicted, tributary, relative, secondary, (*n*) dependant, charge, adjective, attendant, follower, servant, slave, vassal; *antonyms* (*adj*) independent, self-governing, self-sufficient.
- **залежність 1**. dependency; *synonyms* (*n*) dependence, addiction, colony, dependance, relationship, settlement, (*adj*) contingency, **2**. dependence; *synonyms* (*n*) belief, confidence, reliance, dependency, faith, credence, hope,

- trust, habit; *antonyms* (n) independence, self-government, self-sufficiency.
- **3AJUBAHHЯ** filling; *synonyms* (*n*) fill, filler, weft, contents, loading, plug, pad, impletion, padding, stuffing, wadding, woof.
- **Залицяння** court; *synonyms* (*n*) forum, bar, close, field, tribunal, judicatory, passage, judge, courtroom, courtyard, (*v*) woo, attract, invite, romance, flatter; *antonyms* (*v*) avoid, shun.
- **Залицятися** court; *synonyms* (*n*) forum, bar, close, field, tribunal, judicatory, passage, judge, courtroom, courtyard, (*v*) woo, attract, invite, romance, flatter; *antonyms* (*v*) avoid, shun.
- **Залишати 1.** abandon; *synonyms* (v) quit, relinquish, renounce, resign, vacate, desert, evacuate, leave, waive, depart, abdicate, chuck, ditch, drop, forfeit; *antonyms* (v) keep, support, maintain, (n) restraint, **2.** leave; *synonyms* (v) forsake, go, abandon, escape, flee, lead, lay, allow, bequeath, (n) furlough, holiday, permission, permit, break, (adj) empty; *antonyms* (v) arrive, enter, stay, remain, approach, change, come, **3.** desert (ПУСТЕЛЯ); *synonyms* (n) wilderness, (v) defect, abscond, fail, maroon, strand, discard, (adj) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, worth, bleak, excellence; *antonym* (n) bog.
- **Залишатися 1**. Stay; *synonyms* (*v*) remain, reside, rest, prop, stop, abide, continue, endure, pause, arrest, bide, dwell, support, (*n*) delay, halt; *antonyms* (*v*) leave, change, abscond, depart, **2**. remain; *synonyms* (*v*) linger, stay, keep, last, persist, live, hold, be, persevere, stand, exist, stick, attend, lie, detain, **3**. keep (тримати); *synonyms* (*v*) preserve, retain, defend, guard, have, maintain, celebrate, confine, conserve, observe, reserve, save, commemorate, check, harbor; *antonyms* (*v*) dump, lose.
- ЗАЛИШЕНИЙ abandoned; synonyms (adj) forlorn, immoral, deserted, empty, profligate, shameless, stranded, wicked, lonely, corrupt, debauched, depraved, derelict, desolate, discarded; antonyms (adj) restrained, inhabited, orderly, overcrowded.
- **3AJIMMEHHЯ** leaving; *synonyms* (n) departure, leave, exit, desertion, going, farewell, abandonment, departing; *antonym* (n) arrival.
- **Залишковий 1**. residual; *synonyms* (*adj*) remaining, leftover, residuary, (*n*) remnant, residue, balance, remainder, rest, difference, residuum, **2**. permanent; *synonyms* (*adj*) durable, lasting, fixed, eternal, everlasting, fast, perennial, enduring, immutable, indelible, abiding, continual, continuing, (*v*) constant, continuous; *antonyms* (*adj*) fleeting, temporary, brief, impermanent, provisional, transitory, fragile, superficial.
- **залишок 1**. remainder; *synonyms* (*n*) excess, leftover, remain, remnant, end, overplus, residue, balance, oddment, rest, leftovers, relic, remains, remnants, residual, **2**. remains; *synonyms* (*n*) cadaver, corpse, debris, remainder, body, carcass, trace, clay, dregs, vestige, relics, reliquiae, defunct, ruins, scrap, **3**. surplus; *synonyms* (*adj*) extra, superfluous, odd, redundant, spare, unnecessary, plus, (*n*) overabundance, surfeit, glut, overflow, plethora, abundance, nimiety,

- (adv) over; antonyms (n) necessary, lack, shortage, scarcity, 4. rest; synonyms (n) repose, pause, recess, relaxation, leisure, break, quiet, respite, halt, (v) nap, sleep, ease, lie, perch, abide; antonym (v) work.
- **залізний** iron (залізо, прасувати); *synonyms* (n) chain, irons, chains, (v) firm, flatten, press, smooth, (*adj*) hard, adamant, inflexible, steel, tenacious.
- **залізниця** railway; *synonyms* (*n*) railroad, line, tramway. **залізо** iron (прасувати); *synonyms* (*n*) chain, irons, chains, (*v*) firm, flatten, press, smooth, (*adj*) hard, adamant, inflexible, steel, tenacious.
- **3A.TYYEHHH** implication; *synonyms* (n) allusion, hint, significance, consequence, deduction, entailment, import, innuendo, meaning, sense, suggestion, purport, complicity, corollary, (adj) complication.
- **3AJIOGKU** readily; *synonyms* (*adv*) lightly, easily, promptly, soon, quick, freely, gladly, quickly, cheerfully, eagerly, pronto, willingly, commonly, naturally, (*adi*) smoothly.
- **3A.JIβΓAHHЯ** occurrence; *synonyms* (n) case, event, occasion, accident, instance, affair, circumstance, contingency, episode, experience, fact, happening, adventure, eventuality, (ν) incident.
- **3AMA3KA** cement; *synonyms* (*n*) glue, adhesive, gum, paste, size, cementum, (*v*) fasten, fix, join, plaster, stick, adhere, affix, bind, (*adi*) concrete.
- **3AMAHIOBATH** trap; *synonyms* (*n*) snare, net, ambush, gin, mesh, noose, entanglement, ambuscade, bait, (*v*) catch, entrap, ensnare, trick, entangle, capture.
- замерзання freezing; synonyms (adj) cold, icy, arctic, chilly, frosty, bitter, frigid, chill, cool, frozen, gelid, wintry, (v) glacial, (n) freeze, congelation; antonyms (adj) boiling, hot, sweltering, red-hot, warm.
- ЗАМЕРЗЛИЙ frozen; synonyms (adj) cold, frosty, arctic, frigid, glacial, wintry, freezing, icy, stiff, congealed, chilled, chilly, gelid, iced, set; antonyms (adj) hot, moving.
- **3AMUKAHHЯ** enclosure; *synonyms* (*n*) coop, cage, barrier, enclosing, pen, hedge, addition, sty, case, envelopment, fencing, inclosure, insert, railing, ring.
- **3AMUKATU 1.** lock; *synonyms* (*n*) curl, hook, padlock, (*v*) bolt, bar, close, latch, engage, fasten, hug, hold, interlock, secure, shut, (*adj*) hair; *antonyms* (*v*) unlock, open, **2**. pen; *synonyms* (*n*) corral, cage, ballpoint, enclosure, fold, jail, coop, playpen, (*v*) enclose, confine, compose, impound, indite, write, inclose.
- **замислений** thoughtful; *synonyms* (*adj*) considerate, serious, careful, kind, solemn, attentive, courteous, discreet, heedful, pensive, sensible, grave, mindful, anxious, caring; *antonyms* (*adj*) inconsiderate, thoughtless, careless, heedless.
- замислено thoughtfully; synonyms (adv) carefully, considerately, kindly, pensively, seriously, advisedly, austerely, benevolently, cagily, caringly, cautiously, circumspectly, closely, compassionately, delicately; antonyms (adv) thoughtlessly, unsympathetically, unthinkingly, carelessly, contentedly.
- **ЗАМИШЛЯТИ** scheme; *synonyms* (n) contrivance, dodge, arrangement, device, diagram, method, project,

- schedule, (v) plan, plot, design, intrigue, devise, conspire, contrive.
- заміна 1. change; synonyms (n) shift, alteration, barter, modification, variation, move, (v) exchange, alter, adapt, alternate, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn; antonyms (v) stay, leave, idle, maintain, 2. replacement; synonyms (n) substitute, deputy, renewal, substitution, surrogate, reinstatement, permutation, rehabilitation, relief, return, successor, backup, alternative, change, (v) makeshift, 3. substitute; synonyms (adj) replacement, ersatz, imitation, (n) delegate, agent, double, proxy, representative, reserve, (v) replace, sub, cover, commute, deputise, deputize, 4. substitution; synonyms (n) interchange, replacing, swap, transposition.
- **3AMIHUTU** replace; *synonyms* (v) change, exchange, substitute, supersede, supplant, reinstate, displace, restore, shift, deputize, renew, return, succeed, switch, deputise.
- **3AMIHIOBATI** replace; *synonyms* (*v*) change, exchange, substitute, supersede, supplant, reinstate, displace, restore, shift, deputize, renew, return, succeed, switch, deputise.
- заміняти 1. replace; synonyms (v) change, exchange, substitute, supersede, supplant, reinstate, displace, restore, shift, deputize, renew, return, succeed, switch, deputise, 2. substitute; synonyms (adj) replacement, alternative, ersatz, makeshift, (n) deputy, backup, delegate, agent, (v) alternate, replace, surrogate, sub, cover, alter, commute.
- **замісник** substitute; *synonyms* (*adj*) replacement, alternative, ersatz, makeshift, (*n*) deputy, backup, delegate, (*v*) alternate, shift, change, replace, surrogate, exchange, sub, cover.
- **3aMicTb** instead; *synonyms* (*adv*) rather, alternatively, otherwise, preferably, sooner, equivalent, kinda, quite, (*adj*) before, earlier, former, prior, somewhat.
- **3AMIIIIAHHЯ** confusion; *synonyms* (*n*) bewilderment, chaos, commotion, disarray, agitation, bedlam, clutter, disorder, distraction, disturbance, pandemonium, tumult, bustle, huddle, upset; *antonyms* (*n*) clarity, order.
- **3AMIIIIATU 1.** replace; *synonyms* (v) change, exchange, substitute, supersede, supplant, reinstate, displace, restore, shift, deputize, renew, return, succeed, switch, deputise, **2.** substitute; *synonyms* (adj) replacement, alternative, ersatz, makeshift, (n) deputy, backup, delegate, agent, (v) alternate, replace, surrogate, sub, cover, alter, commute.
- **3AMIIIEHHЯ 1.** replacement; *synonyms* (*n*) exchange, substitute, alternate, deputy, renewal, substitution, surrogate, reinstatement, permutation, rehabilitation, relief, return, successor, switch, (*v*) makeshift, **2.** substitution; *synonyms* (*n*) replacement, change, interchange, shift, replacing, swap, transposition.
- замкнений closed; synonyms (v) close, tight, accurate, adjoining, attentive, (adj) blind, blocked, finished, shut, congested, fastened, exclusive, insular, stopped, airtight; antonym (adj) open.
- **3AMKHYTU** lock; *synonyms* (*n*) curl, hook, padlock, (*v*) bolt, bar, close, latch, engage, fasten, hug, hold,

- interlock, secure, shut, (adj) hair; antonyms (v) unlock, open.
- **ЗАМКНУТИЙ** close; *synonyms* (*adj*) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, (*v*) compact, stop, conclude, (*adv*) by, about, (*n*) end, finish, conclusion; *antonyms* (*adj*) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (*v*) open, start.
- **3AMOBUTU** order; *synonyms* (*n*) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (*v*) direct, commission, arrange, call; *antonyms* (*n*) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (*v*) disorder, request.
- Замовлення 1. order; synonyms (n) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (v) direct, commission, arrange, call; antonyms (n) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (v) disorder, request, 2. custom; synonyms (n) tradition, habit, convention, practice, usage, use, fashion, impost, method, observance, order, rite, ritual, (v) accustom, (adj) bespoke.
- **Замовляти 1**. order; *synonyms* (*n*) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (*v*) direct, commission, arrange, call; *antonyms* (*n*) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (*v*) disorder, request, **2**. engage; *synonyms* (*v*) contract, attract, book, employ, absorb, betroth, charter, enlist, retain, draw, engross, hire, involve, lock, mesh; *antonyms* (*v*) fire, disengage.
- **замовник 1.** customer; *synonyms* (*n*) consumer, buyer, patron, client, guest, purchaser, shopper, fellow, passenger, person, spender; *antonym* (*n*) seller, **2**. client; *synonym* (*n*) customer.
- **заможний** 1. wealthy; *synonyms* (*adj*) rich, moneyed, affluent, flush, opulent, prosperous, loaded, substantial, generous, abounding, abundant, ample, monied, successful, thriving; *antonyms* (*adj*) poor, impoverished, **2.** substantial; *synonyms* (*adj*) actual, solid, firm, real, strong, considerable, important, palpable, significant, essential, momentous, sturdy, sound, concrete, big; *antonyms* (*adj*) insignificant, insubstantial, small, ethereal, fine, worthless, **3.** prosperous; *synonyms* (*adj*) lucky, auspicious, flourishing, favorable, advantageous, comfortable, easy, palmy, well-off, propitious, happy, booming, favourable, (*n*) fortunate, good.
- **3AMOK 1.** castle; *synonyms* (n) rook, citadel, fortification, fortress, castling, fort, keep, mansion, palace, stronghold, tower, house, chateau, court, (v) donjon, **2.** lock; *synonyms* (n) curl, hook, padlock, (v) bolt, bar, close, latch, engage, fasten, hug, hold, interlock, secure, shut, (adj) hair; *antonyms* (v) unlock, open.
- **заморожений** frozen; *synonyms* (*adj*) cold, frosty, arctic, frigid, glacial, wintry, freezing, icy, stiff, congealed, chilled, chilly, gelid, iced, set; *antonyms* (*adj*) hot, moving.
- **3AMOPOЖУВАННЯ** freezing; *synonyms* (*adj*) cold, icy, arctic, chilly, frosty, bitter, frigid, chill, cool, frozen, gelid, wintry, (*v*) glacial, (*n*) freeze, congelation; *antonyms* (*adj*) boiling, hot, sweltering, red-hot, warm.
- **3AMOPOЖУВАТИ** block; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, barricade, pad, clog, cluster, (*v*) arrest, stop, hinder,

- encumber, halt, lock, obstruct, parry, plug, (adj) lump; antonyms (v) free, unblock, open.
- **заморський** overseas; *synonyms* (*adj*) foreign, across, away, distant, transpacific, (*adv*) abroad, oversea, afield.
- **3ahabicka** curtain; *synonyms* (*n*) veil, cover, barrier, blind, drapery, screen, drape, mantle, mask, pall, shade, shroud, blanket, (*v*) hide, banquette.
- **ЗАНАДТО** too; *synonyms* (*adv*) also, likewise, besides, excessively, over, overly, further, furthermore, moreover, extremely, equally, and, unduly, similarly.
- заненад 1. decline; synonyms (n) decay, declension, decrease, dip, declination, (v) wane, drop, reject, fall, abate, ebb, fail, refuse, sink, deny; antonyms (n) improvement, recovery, development, growth, rebirth, (v) increase, rise, accept, flourish, improve, 2. decay; synonyms (n) decline, decomposition, corruption, disintegration, collapse, deterioration, (v) rot, decompose, blight, rust, crumble, corrupt, deteriorate, disintegrate, (adj) fade, 3. depression; synonyms (n) basin, cavity, dejection, dent, hole, hollow, impression, slump, trench, trough, recess, concavity, despair, despondency, dimple; antonyms (n) cheerfulness, happiness, boom, elation, encouragement, inflation, outcrop.
- **занепадати** decay; *synonyms* (*n*) decline, decomposition, ebb, corruption, disintegration, collapse, deterioration, (*v*) rot, decompose, blight, rust, crumble, corrupt, decrease, deteriorate; *antonym* (*n*) growth.
- **занепокосний** anxious; *synonyms* (*adj*) afraid, alarmed, nervous, tense, uneasy, agitated, apprehensive, concerned, distressed, fearful, frightened, keen, thoughtful, (v) jumpy, solicitous; *antonyms* (*adj*) calm, relaxed, carefree, confident, rational, unconcerned, undisturbed, untroubled.
- **занепокоення 1**. concern; *synonyms* (*n*) business, affair, regard, attention, anxiety, bother, matter, company, apprehension, burden, (*v*) worry, affect, care, interest, trouble; *antonym* (*v*) unconcern, **2**. unrest; *synonyms* (*n*) turmoil, agitation, disquiet, disorder, ferment, fermentation, revolution, tumult, turbulence, commotion, excitement, chaos, disturbance, restlessness, strife; *antonyms* (*n*) calm, rest.
- **3AHECEHHЯ** entry (BXIД); *synonyms* (n) entrance, admission, article, door, accession, access, admittance, doorway, entree, hall, record, enrollment, entering, entranceway, entryway; *antonym* (n) exit.
- **3AHOBO** newly; *synonyms* (*adv*) lately, new, recently, freshly, late, anew, fresh, again, latterly, (*adj*) afresh.
- **Занотовувати** note; *synonyms* (*n*) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, (*v*) notice, mind, look, detect; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- **3AHOTYBATU** note; *synonyms* (*n*) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, (*v*) notice, mind, look, detect; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- **ЗАНУРЕНИЙ** sunk; *synonyms* (v) dashed, (adj) sunken, undone, finished, profound, ruined, immersed, blasted, buried, damaged, damp, deep, dejected, depressed, desolate.

- занурення steep; synonyms (adj) high, abrupt, excessive, exorbitant, outrageous, sheer, (v) douse, immerse, soak, dip, drench, imbue, infuse, saturate, impregnate; antonyms (adj) gentle, gradual.
- 3AHYPIOBATИ 1. duck (качка); synonyms (n) darling, canvas, (v) dip, douse, plunge, dodge, circumvent, dive, evade, souse, bob, avoid, crouch, dunk, elude, 2. steep; synonyms (adj) high, abrupt, excessive, exorbitant, outrageous, sheer, (v) immerse, soak, drench, imbue, infuse, saturate, impregnate, bathe, (n) bold; antonyms (adj) gentle, gradual.
- заняття 1. affair; synonyms (n) matter, business, concern, event, job, occasion, occurrence, amour, duty, happening, incident, issue, party, subject, theme, 2. occupation; synonyms (n) employment, occupancy, craft, calling, place, affair, career, conquest, function, line, profession, vocation, work, activity, (v) trade; antonym (n) surrender, 3. engagement; synonyms (n) combat, battle, appointment, commitment, conflict, contract, contest, fight, betrothal, date, encounter, employ, agreement, clash, (v) action, 4. trade; synonyms (n) deal, barter, commerce, swap, switch. clientele, interchange, occupation, custom, dealing, (v) change, exchange, merchandise, bargain, sell; antonyms (n) purchase, (adj) charitable, 5. employ; synonyms (v) apply, use, consume, engage, exercise, exploit, hire, wield, busy, exert, occupy, ply, retain, spend, (n) service; antonyms (v) fire, dismiss, 6. pursuit; synonyms (n) quest, chase, hunt, persecution, search, interest, performance, following, pastime, aspiration, exploration, diversion, endeavor, enterprise, game.
- **ЗАОКЕАНСЬКИЙ** overseas; *synonyms* (*adj*) foreign, across, away, distant, transpacific, (*adv*) abroad, oversea, afield
- **3AOXOTHTH** encourage; *synonyms* (v) cheer, abet, advance, aid, back, boost, comfort, foster, further, promote, urge, advocate, cherish, advise, animate; *antonyms* (v) discourage, dishearten, prevent, deter, hurt, obstruct, stop.
- 3AOXOYEHHЯ 1. encouragement; synonyms (n) comfort, aid, backing, incentive, promotion, support, cheer, consolation, advocacy, assistance, boost, fosterage, incitement, inducement, inspiration; antonyms (n) discouragement, neglect, 2. promotion; synonyms (n) furtherance, advance, advancement, advertising, encouragement, hype, preferment, progress, advertisement, cultivation, exaltation, forwarding, publicity, improvement, lift; antonym (n) demotion, 3. motivation; synonyms (n) motive, impulse, cause, reason, spur, impetus, force, grounds, motif, provocation, stimulus, drive.
- 3aoxouybath 1. encourage; synonyms (v) cheer, abet, advance, aid, back, boost, comfort, foster, further, promote, urge, advocate, cherish, advise, animate; antonyms (v) discourage, dishearten, prevent, deter, hurt, obstruct, stop, 2. foster; synonyms (v) cultivate, encourage, breed, foment, nurture, rear, support, educate, entertain, tend, keep, feed, nourish, nurse, patronize; antonym (v) neglect.

- **ЗАОЩАДЖЕННЯ** savings; *synonyms* (*n*) reserve, saving, store, capital, cash, funds, resources; *antonym* (*n*) expenditure.
- **ЗАОЩАДЖУВАТИ** save; *synonyms* (v) deliver, economize, rescue, conserve, free, hoard, keep, maintain, preserve, liberate, protect, redeem, retain, defend, (*prep*) except; *antonyms* (v) spend, squander, waste.
- **ЗАПАДИНА** pit; *synonyms* (*n*) cavity, dent, hole, depression, grave, colliery, excavation, mine, stone, dig, (*v*) den, ditch, oppose, cave, (*adj*) hollow.
- **ЗАПАДНЯ** net; *synonyms* (*adj*) final, last, (*n*) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, (*v*) mesh, clear, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; *antonym* (*v*) gross.
- **3απα**π passion; *synonyms* (n) fury, affection, feeling, fervor, fire, love, anger, craving, desire, enthusiasm, heat, mania, rage, fondness, (ν) ardor; *antonyms* (n) apathy, indifference.
- **3AIIAJIUTU** light; *synonyms* (*adj*) fair, clear, facile, easy, faint, flimsy, (*n*) flame, brightness, daylight, (*v*) fire, kindle, inflame, glow, ignite, dismount; *antonyms* (*adj*) fattening, nauseating, (*n*) dark, darkness, gloom, shade, night, (*v*) extinguish, darken, (*alt sp*) heavy.
- **ЗАПАЛЬНИЙ** passionate; *synonyms* (*adj*) ardent, hot, angry, animated, burning, excited, fervent, fierce, earnest, amorous, eager, enthusiastic, excitable, (*adv*) fiery, (*v*) impetuous; *antonyms* (*adj*) apathetic, indifferent, mild, passionless.
- **запальничка** lighter; *synonyms* (*n*) barge, flatboat, igniter, light, coaster, collier, hoy, ignitor, pontoon, brightness, illumination, slaver, whaler, lighting, lightness.
- **3AIIAJIBHICTB** warmth; *synonyms* (*n*) glow, heat, temperature, fervor, geniality, passion, warmness, affection, tenderness, fire, fondness, friendliness, hotness, sympathy, (*adj*) verve; *antonyms* (*n*) aloofness, chill, chilliness, coldness, coolness, unfriendliness.
- **ЗАПАЛНОВАТИ** light; *synonyms* (*adj*) fair, clear, facile, easy, faint, flimsy, (*n*) flame, brightness, daylight, (*v*) fire, kindle, inflame, glow, ignite, dismount; *antonyms* (*adj*) fattening, nauseating, (*n*) dark, darkness, gloom, shade, night, (*v*) extinguish, darken, (*alt sp*) heavy.
- **3AIIAJHOBA4** lighter; *synonyms* (*n*) barge, flatboat, igniter, light, coaster, collier, hoy, ignitor, pontoon, brightness, illumination, slaver, whaler, lighting, lightness.
- **3AIIAMOPOYEHHЯ** swimming; *synonyms* (*adj*) vertigo, liquid, naiant, natatorial, aquatic, dizzy, dripping, flowing, fluent, fluid, giddy, light, (*n*) swim, natation, (*v*) dizziness.
- **ЗАПАМ'ЯТАТИ** remember; *synonyms* (v) commemorate, recognize, recall, recollect, consider, record, remind, retain, think, review, ponder, mark, imagine, refresh, cite; *antonym* (v) forget.
- **3affac 1**. reserve; *synonyms* (*n*) backup, modesty, reservation, substitute, bank, cache, diffidence, hoard, (*v*) keep, save, book, maintain, appropriate, engage, hold; *antonyms* (*n*) openness, friendliness, informality, warmth, **2**. store; *synonyms* (*n*) shop, market, business, emporium, heap, reserve, supply, accumulation, fund, (*v*) stock, accumulate, garner, amass, preserve, collect, **3**.

- fund; synonyms (n) store, capital, savings, endowment, money, (v) bankroll, finance, back, sponsor, subsidize, support, underwrite, 4. holding; synonyms (n) estate, belongings, keeping, claim, capture, interest, occupation, ownership, property, retention, take, tenure, demand, title, (adj) retaining, 5. margin; synonyms (n) edge, brink, boundary, hem, brim, limit, verge, circumference, fringe, perimeter, skirt, allowance, bound, confine, (v) border; antonym (n) center, 6. supply; synonyms (n) provision, issue, (v) furnish, afford, fill, feed, offer, provide, cater, contribute, deliver, equip, give, outfit, produce.
- 3aπacaτu 1. reserve; synonyms (n) backup, modesty, reservation, substitute, bank, cache, diffidence, hoard, (ν) keep, save, book, maintain, appropriate, engage, hold; antonyms (n) openness, friendliness, informality, warmth, 2. provide; synonyms (ν) give, contribute, furnish, offer, accommodate, administer, afford, cater, equip, supply, allow, fit, endow, outfit, nourish.
- запасний 1. spare; synonyms (adj) reserve, slender, excess, save, slight, additional, lean, slim, thin, bare, (v) free, meager, exempt, (n) extra, backup, 2. emergency; synonyms (n) crisis, contingency, exigency, accident, need, pinch, casualty, disaster, demand, circumstance, emergence, predicament, adventure, catastrophe, pass, 3. reserve; synonyms (n) modesty, reservation, substitute, bank, cache, diffidence, hoard, order, (v) keep, book, maintain, appropriate, engage, hold, preserve; antonyms (n) openness, friendliness, informality, warmth, 4. reserved; synonyms (adj) modest, distant, coy, diffident, reticent, bashful, aloof, frigid, quiet, retiring, shy, formal, humble, moderate, (n) cold; antonyms (adj) outgoing, open, forthcoming, relaxed, uninhibited, warm.
- 3aπax 1. odour; synonyms (n) fragrance, flavour, aroma, smell, odor, scent, flavor, feel, feeling, look, olfaction, smelling, spirit, tone, 2. smell; synonyms (n) savor, bouquet, odour, savour, stench, smack, relish, sense, breath, (v) reek, nose, perfume, stink, sniff, snuff, 3. scent; synonyms (n) essence, redolence, incense, clue, trail, clew, key, hint, tang, track, wake, (v) wind, aromatize, (adj) smoke, suspect, 4. wind (BiTep); synonyms (n) air, gust, (v) coil, twist, curl, meander, turn, bend, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll, weave.
- **ЗАПАШНИЙ** sweet; *synonyms* (*adj*) beloved, delicious, fresh, lovely, mellow, dear, lovable, melodious, musical, pleasant, pleasing, sugary, charming, delightful, (*n*) confection; *antonyms* (*adj*) sour, acid, bitter, discordant, acidic, pungent, sharp, salty.
- 3AIIEBHEHHЯ 1. assurance; synonyms (n) confidence, belief, guarantee, pledge, affiance, certitude, conviction, faith, nerve, poise, promise, reliance, security, sureness, trust; antonym (n) insecurity, 2. reassurance; synonyms (n) consolation, encouragement, declaration, lift, oath, protection, sympathy, word, succor; antonym (n) nervousness.
- **3AΠΕΒΗΝΤͶ** assure; *synonyms* (ν) guarantee, certify, secure, affirm, ascertain, ensure, persuade, promise, reassure, satisfy, vouch, confirm, convince, cover, (n) warrant

- **Запевняти 1**. assure; *synonyms* (*v*) guarantee, certify, secure, affirm, ascertain, ensure, persuade, promise, reassure, satisfy, vouch, confirm, convince, cover, (*n*) warrant, **2**. convince; *synonyms* (*v*) assure, convert, sway, convict, entice, induce, disarm; *antonyms* (*v*) discourage, dissuade, **3**. tell; *synonyms* (*v*) relate, declare, divulge, express, impart, recount, reveal, explain, announce, command, communicate, describe, distinguish, (*n*) disclose, count; *antonym* (*v*) request.
- заперечення 1. denial; synonyms (n) negation, abnegation, renunciation, repulse, no, abjuration, contradiction, negative, refusal, rejection, forswearing, nay, abandonment, rebuff, rebuttal; antonyms (n) acceptance, affirmation, declaration, admission, confession, 2. objection; synonyms (n) dissent, protest, complaint, exception, grievance, gripe, disagreement, outcry, difficulty, disapproval, expostulation, criticism, challenge, disadvantage, drawback, 3. exception; synonyms (n) exclusion, objection, exemption, anomaly, immunity, peculiarity, privilege, release, repudiation, condition, salvo, animadversion; antonym (n) inclusion, **4**. answer; *synonyms* (n) reply, respond, retort, return, solution, defense, echo, (v) counter, resolve, serve, acknowledge, agree, correspond, do, (adj) pay; antonyms (v) question, ask, 5. protest; synonyms (n) demonstration, moan, (v) assert, complain, object, affirm, asseverate, attest, aver, declare, demur, expostulate, grumble, remonstrate, demonstrate; antonym (v)
- 3AПЕРЕЧИТИ 1. deny; synonyms (v) contradict, controvert, decline, disavow, rebuff, abnegate, disown, gainsay, oppose, refuse, reject, renounce, abjure, contravene, disallow; antonyms (v) admit, affirm, acknowledge, claim, declare, agree, maintain, 2. object; synonyms (n) design, aim, cause, end, intent, intention, meaning, mark, matter, subject, substance, drift, (v) except, mind, complain.
- заперечувати 1. deny; synonyms (v) contradict, controvert, decline, disavow, rebuff, abnegate, disown, gainsay, oppose, refuse, reject, renounce, abjure, contravene, disallow; antonyms (v) admit, affirm, acknowledge, claim, declare, agree, maintain, 2. object; synonyms (n) design, aim, cause, end, intent, intention, meaning, mark, matter, subject, substance, drift, (v) except, mind, complain, 3. challenge; synonyms (n) question, defiance, protest, contest, (v) defy, dare, brave, dispute, ask, call, charge, demur, deny, doubt, impeach; antonym (v) obey, 4. mind (poзум); synonyms (n) intellect, brain, head, inclination, intelligence, psyche, regard, (v) care, look, attend, beware, keep, listen, notice, (adi) heed; antonym (v) forget.
- **заперечую** object; *synonyms* (n) design, aim, cause, end, intent, intention, meaning, mark, matter, subject, substance, drift, (v) except, mind, complain; *antonym* (v) agree.
- 3AПЕЧАТУВАТИ 1. cap; *synonyms* (n) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (v) top, beat, limit, surpass, better, 2. seal; *synonyms* (n) mark, stamp, cachet, hallmark, imprint, impression, signet, (v) plug, bar, close, shut, stop, clinch, lock, (adj) conclude; *antonyms* (v) open, unseal.

- **запилити** dust; *synonyms* (*n*) powder, dirt, grit, relics, remains, rhino, soil, blunt, debris, (*v*) clean, sprinkle, spray, wipe, spread, scatter.
- **3atiuc 1.** record; *synonyms* (*n*) register, list, account, book, disk, document, history, deed, (*v*) chronicle, file, enter, note, report, score, inscribe, **2.** recording; *synonyms* (*n*) record, album, transcription, scan, disc, cartridge, cassette, cutting, footage, hearing, program, release, show, single, (*adj*) registering, **3.** notation; *synonyms* (*n*) annotation, memo, memorandum, annotating, banknote, bill, billet, digit, distinction, eminence, greenback, line, transcript, (*v*) addition, approximation, **4.** register; *synonyms* (*n*) inventory, catalogue, roll, annals, index, listing, registry, (*v*) enroll, indicate, read, mark, enlist, catalog, display, schedule.
- **Записка** note; synonyms (n) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, (v) notice, mind, look, detect; antonym (v) ignore.
- **3απμεγβατμ 1.** record; *synonyms* (*n*) register, list, account, book, disk, document, history, deed, (*v*) chronicle, file, enter, note, report, score, inscribe, **2.** note; *synonyms* (*n*) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, (*v*) notice, mind, look, detect; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- запит 1. request; synonyms (n) petition, bid, prayer, application, claim, (v) demand, ask, invite, order, pray, appeal, beg, call, desire, entreat; antonym (v) command,
  2. enquiry; synonyms (n) inquiry, query, question, research, doubt, doubtfulness, dubiousness, head, motion
- **ЗАПИТАННЯ** question; *synonyms* (n) inquiry, challenge, demand, matter, problem, (v) doubt, query, distrust, inquire, interrogate, investigate, contest, dispute, examine, enquire; *antonyms* (n) certainty, (v) answer
- **ЗАПИТУВАТИ** ask; *synonyms* (v) inquire, request, appeal, beg, demand, interrogate, question, take, beseech, call, charge, claim, consult, crave, invite; *antonym* (v) answer.
- ЗАПІЗНІЛИЙ 1. back; synonyms (adv) before, backward, (n) rear, (adj) assist, (v) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; antonyms (n) face, (v) front, oppose, advance, 2. late (пізно); synonyms (adj) former, dead, deceased, behindhand, belated, delayed, modern, slow, tardy, dull, defunct, bygone, (adv) dilatory, fresh, belatedly; antonyms (adj) ahead, (adv) early, punctually, promptly, punctual.
- **3AIIJILHEHHS** conception; *synonyms* (n) notion, concept, idea, creation, thought, view, mind, apprehension, belief, comprehension, design, fancy, image, imagination, impression; *antonym* (n) misconception.
- заплутаний 1. complicated; synonyms (adj) complex, intricate, elaborate, hard, complicate, awkward, convoluted, deep, difficult, knotty, obscure, sophisticated, tortuous, tricky, (v) involved; antonyms (adj) simple, straightforward, clear, easy, 2. intricate; synonyms (adj) complicated, entangled, inextricable,

- knotted, compound, dark, abstruse, labyrinthine, mazy, tangled, (n) composite, **3**. complex; **synonyms** (adj) abstract, multifarious, multiple, perplexing, thorny, (n) obsession, combination, syndrome, whole, character, system; **antonyms** (adj) basic, plain.
- **3AIJJYTAHICTЬ 1.** complexity; *synonyms* (n) complication, intricacy, complex, convolution, complexness, confusion, muddle, character, combination, complexion, depth, embarrassment, imbroglio, insight, (adj) entanglement; antonyms (n) simplicity, clarity, **2.** embarrassment; *synonyms* (n) difficulty, dilemma, discomfiture, quandary, bewilderment, humiliation, mortification, shame, uneasiness, chagrin, anxiety, disgrace, (v) distress, embarrass, (adj) perplexity.
- **ЗАПЈЯМОВАНИЙ** spotted; *synonyms* (*adj*) mottled, dappled, speckled, blotchy, dotted, flyblown, piebald, multicolored, dirty, spotty, stained, tainted, besmirched, damaged, freckled; *antonym* (*adj*) plain.
- **3AΠΟБΙΓΑΗΗЯ 1.** prevention; *synonyms* (n) avoidance, bar, exclusion, interference, prohibition, restraint, prenotion; *antonym* (n) success, **2.** preservation; *synonyms* (n) conservation, maintenance, keeping, protection, custody, upkeep, care, salvation, saving, security, creation; *antonyms* (n) destruction, extinction, release.
- **3AHOBIFJIMBICTЬ** consideration; *synonyms* (n) concern, respect, attention, care, reflection, thought, account, cogitation, conception, deliberation, notice, tact, thoughtfulness, (v) regard, condition; *antonyms* (n) thoughtflessness, impulsiveness, inconsideration.
- **заповідати** will; synonyms (v) bequeath, devise, wish, leave, (n) volition, command, desire, inclination, determination, pleasure, resolve, intent, mind, courage, liking.
- **ЗАПОВІДНИК** park; *synonyms* (n) garden, common, green, parkland, arena, field, lawn, ballpark, commons, (v) deposit, locate, place, put, set, position.
- **3anobir 1.** will; *synonyms* (*v*) bequeath, devise, wish, leave, (*n*) volition, command, desire, inclination, determination, pleasure, resolve, intent, mind, courage, liking, **2.** testament; *synonyms* (*n*) will, testimonial, testimony, paper, parchment, settlement, evidence, bible, certificate, confirmation, credentials, declaration, gospel, guarantee, (*v*) decree.
- **заповнення** filling; *synonyms* (*n*) fill, filler, weft, contents, loading, plug, pad, impletion, padding, stuffing, wadding, woof.
- **Заповнити** fill; *synonyms* (*v*) block, clog, charge, line, stuff, accomplish, execute, complete, brim, close, cram, flood, fulfill, (*n*) crowd, filling; *antonyms* (*v*) empty, free.
- **Заповнювати 1.** fill; *synonyms* (*v*) block, clog, charge, line, stuff, accomplish, execute, complete, brim, close, cram, flood, fulfill, (*n*) crowd, filling, *antonyms* (*v*) empty, free, **2.** occupy; *synonyms* (*v*) hold, have, engage, engross, fill, get, absorb, employ, inhabit, invade, possess, conquer, busy, capture, (*n*) entertain; *antonym* (*v*) leave.
- **Запозичення** adoption; *synonyms* (*n*) acceptance, espousal, assumption, borrowing, cooptation, enactment,

- maintenance, affiliation, (adj) conversion, inspiration, justification, regeneration, salvation, sanctification, (v) passage.
- **3AПОЗИЧУВАТИ** adopt; *synonyms* (v) accept, admit, affiliate, assume, borrow, espouse, pass, take, acquire, choose, embrace, follow, imitate, naturalize, prefer; *antonym* (v) reject.
- **запроваджувати** introduce; *synonyms* (*v*) insert, interject, inject, acquaint, advance, enter, exhibit, implant, inaugurate, infuse, initiate, precede, present, instill, interpose; *antonym* (*v*) end.
- **ЗАПРОСИТИ** invite; *synonyms* (v) draw, allure, bid, call, tempt, ask, attract, entice, summon, beckon, court, encourage, receive, solicit, (n) invitation.
- **запрошення 1**. invitation; *synonyms* (*n*) call, bidding, temptation, lure, supplication, attraction, bid, request, entreaty, importunity, (*v*) invite, solicitation, **2**. engagement; *synonyms* (*n*) combat, battle, appointment, commitment, conflict, contract, contest, fight, duty, betrothal, date, employment, encounter, employ, (*v*) action.
- **запрошувати 1**. invite; *synonyms* (*v*) draw, allure, bid, call, tempt, ask, attract, entice, summon, beckon, court, encourage, receive, solicit, (*n*) invitation, **2**. ask; *synonyms* (*v*) inquire, request, appeal, beg, demand, interrogate, question, take, beseech, charge, claim, consult, crave, invite, involve; *antonym* (*v*) answer.
- **запряжка** team; *synonyms* (*n*) crew, company, gang, squad, organization, party, side, troop, couple, brigade, faction, group, (*v*) pair, band, (*adj*) rank.
- **3anyck 1.** starting; *synonyms* (n) start, commencement, first, outset, departure, kickoff, origin, source, advantage, (adj) opening, initial, incipient, original, (prep) beginning, from, **2.** launching; *synonyms* (n) introduction, launch, debut, entry, initiation, fling, baptism, cast, conception, entering, entrance, entranceway, entree, entryway, inauguration.
- **3AIIYCKATU** launch; *synonyms* (*n*) boat, (*v*) initiate, begin, dart, found, fire, introduce, toss, commence, establish, hurl, inaugurate, institute, start, cast; *antonym* (*v*) end.
- **зап'ясток** wrist; *synonyms* (n) carpus, (v) finger, hand, paw.
- **заради** for; *synonyms* (*prep*) because, behind, by, per, during, on, toward, (*conj*) considering, since, (*adv*) against, as, therefore, hence.
- 3APAЖЕННЯ 1. contamination; synonyms (n) contagion, pollution, contaminant, infection, dirtying, corruption, taint, vitiation, adulteration, depravity, (v) defilement; antonym (n) decontamination, 2. infection; synonyms (n) disease, contamination, septicity, illness, inspiration, transmission, virus, bug, galvanism.
- 3apa3 1. presently; synonyms (adv) directly, immediately, now, shortly, soon, currently, instantly, just, forthwith, quickly, 2. now; synonyms (adv) here, presently, already, nowadays, straight, today, right, promptly, straightaway, (adj) current, present, trendy, immediate, fashionable, (prep) because; antonym (adv) later.
- **3APA3A** infection; *synonyms* (n) contagion, disease, contamination, taint, corruption, septicity, illness,

- inspiration, transmission, virus, bug, galvanism, (adj) pollution.
- **ЗАРАЗЛИВИЙ** catching; *synonyms* (*adj*) contagious, communicable, infectious, epidemic, (*n*) discovery, take.
- **ЗАРАЗЛИВІСТЬ** infection; *synonyms* (*n*) contagion, disease, contamination, taint, corruption, septicity, illness, inspiration, transmission, virus, bug, galvanism, (*adi*) pollution.
- ЗАРЕЄСТРОВАНИЙ registered; synonyms (adj) enrolled, booked, conscript, denoted, destined, indicated, measured.
- **ЗАРЕЗЕРВОВАНИЙ** reserved; *synonyms* (*adj*) modest, distant, coy, diffident, reticent, bashful, aloof, frigid, quiet, retiring, shy, formal, humble, moderate, (*n*) cold; *antonyms* (*adj*) outgoing, open, forthcoming, relaxed, uninhibited, warm.
- **3APOGITKU** earnings; *synonyms* (*n*) profit, salary, income, pay, profits, revenue, wage, compensation, gain, lucre, proceeds, receipts, remuneration, returns, takings.
- **3APOBITOK 1.** income; *synonyms* (*n*) earnings, proceeds, profit, revenue, gain, means, pay, return, salary, yield, allowance, profits, receipts, wages, livelihood; *antonym* (*n*) loss, **2.** earnings; *synonyms* (*n*) income, wage, compensation, lucre, remuneration, returns, takings.
- **Заробляти 1.** earn; *synonyms* (*v*) acquire, gain, attain, deserve, get, win, bring, achieve, bear, merit, net, obtain, profit, yield, clear; *antonyms* (*v*) lose, spend, **2.** gain; *synonyms* (*v*) benefit, derive, catch, earn, advance, make, reach, find, accomplish, come, effect, (*n*) earnings, acquisition, advantage, addition; *antonym* (*n*) loss, **3.** win; *synonyms* (*v*) conquer, prevail, secure, take, succeed, carry, vanquish, procure, score, hit, receive, gather, overcome, (*n*) triumph, profits; *antonym* (*n*) defeat, **4.** make (робити); *synonyms* (*v*) build, cause, construct, do, create, fashion, force, give, produce, let, compel, constitute, design, drive, (*n*) form; *antonym* (*v*) destroy.
- 3APO3УМІЛИЙ 1. arrogant; synonyms (adj) haughty, imperious, presumptuous, proud, dogmatic, boastful, conceited, condescending, disdainful, domineering, egotistical, insolent, overbearing, supercilious, vain; antonyms (adj) modest, self-effacing, (syn) humble, 2. proud; synonyms (adj) arrogant, dignified, lofty, exalted, gallant, lordly, majestic, pompous, elated, grand, magnificent, noble, sublime, superior, high; antonyms (adj) ashamed, embarrassed.
- **ЗАРОСЛИЙ** rank; *synonyms* (n) range, place, file, gradation, line, degree, quality, (v) arrange, order, class, classify, grade, position, array, group; *antonym* (adj) fresh.
- **3APOCTI** jungle; *synonyms* (n) bush, forest, maze, tangle, snarl, wood, woodland, labyrinth, (adj) wilderness.
- 3APIIJIATA 1. wage; synonyms (n) salary, pay, fee, payment, income, allowance, earnings, remuneration, stipend, (v) fight, engage, prosecute, pursue, hire, 2. salary; synonyms (n) wage, emolument, compensation, gain, profit, revenue, reward, wages.

- **3APYσKA** nick; *synonyms* (n) notch, mark, cut, chip, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (ν) dent, steal, hack, indent.
- **3APY40HU** engagement; *synonyms* (*n*) combat, battle, appointment, commitment, conflict, contract, contest, fight, duty, betrothal, date, employment, encounter, employ, (*v*) action.
- заряд charge; synonyms (n) accusation, burden, care, command, commission, bill, tax, accusal, assail, (v) accuse, blame, attack, bid, load, arraign; antonyms (v) request, absolve, retreat.
- ЗАРЯДЖАТИ 1. charge; synonyms (n) accusation, burden, care, command, commission, bill, tax, accusal, assail, (v) accuse, blame, attack, bid, load, arraign; antonyms (v) request, absolve, retreat, 2. arm; synonyms (n) branch, wing, bay, department, division, limb, might, offshoot, power, section, sleeve, (v) equip, furnish, outfit, provide; antonym (v) disarm, 3. shot; synonyms (n) gunshot, injection, go, fling, ball, crack, shoot, picture, attempt, bang, bullet, chance, discharge, effort, endeavor, 4. load; synonyms (n) charge, cargo, freight, stack, heap, pack, weight, consignment, lading, shipment, (v) fill, encumber, pile, lade, stow; antonym (v) unload.
- 3ACBIJUSBATH 1. witness; synonyms (n) spectator, testimony, bystander, eyewitness, onlooker, evidence, observer, testifier, beholder, proof, (v) attest, observe, notice, see, view; antonym (n) participant, 2. certificate; synonyms (n) bond, diploma, certification, credential, credentials, document, license, testimonial, warrant, authentication, deed, docket, bill, (v) certify, sanction, 3. prove; synonyms (v) demonstrate, confirm, manifest, establish, examine, show, approve, assert, authenticate, check, corroborate, essay, evince, test, try; antonym (v) disprove.
- **3ACBOCHHM** adoption; *synonyms* (n) acceptance, espousal, assumption, borrowing, cooptation, enactment, maintenance, affiliation, (adj) conversion, inspiration, justification, regeneration, salvation, sanctification, (v) passage.
- 3ACBOIOBATH adopt; synonyms (v) accept, admit, affiliate, assume, borrow, espouse, pass, take, acquire, choose, embrace, follow, imitate, naturalize, prefer; antonym (v) reject.
- **заселення** 1. population; *synonyms* (n) inhabitants, people, nation, community, group, populace, public, society, folk, citizens, stock, universe, 2. settlement; *synonyms* (n) decision, accommodation, colony, hamlet, payment, arrangement, conclusion, resolution, determination, contract, adjustment, agreement, colonization, establishment, liquidation.
- **3ACUJIATH** exile; *synonyms* (*n*) banishment, deportation, expulsion, deportee, outcast, refugee, emigrant, expatriation, (*v*) banish, expatriate, deport, expel, eject, proscribe, (*adj*) exclude; *antonym* (*v*) repatriate.
- засіб 1. way (дорога, шлях); synonyms (n) course, method, path, passage, road, route, track, custom, direction, form, manner, means, style, fashion, habit, 2. recipe; synonyms (n) receipt, formula, prescription, secret, nostrum, answer, amalgamation, basis, batter,

- blend, capacity, convention, design, dish, explanation, 3. agency; synonyms (n) bureau, office, authority, commission, expedient, factor, instrument, organ, way, efficiency, activity, board, (v) action, act, deed, 4. engine; synonyms (n) locomotive, machine, contrivance, implement, mechanism, tool, utensil, 5. avenue; synonyms (n) channel, approach, boulevard, lane, walk, outlet, 6. remedy; synonyms (n) cure, redress, medicine, drug, relief, antidote, curative, (v) heal, help, amend, rectify, correct, relieve, aid, doctor, 7. resource; synonyms (n) imagination, stock, device, facility, asset, resourcefulness, shift, source, (v) recourse, resort, refuge, 8. medium; synonyms (adj) intermediate, fair, mid, middle, middling, moderate, (n) average, mediocre, mean, atmosphere, go-between, vehicle, agency, environment, mediocrity, 9. means; synonyms (n) assets, capital, funds, income, agent, medium, process, property, resource, resources, substance, wealth, wherewithal, measure, riches.
- **3aciahha 1.** sitting; *synonyms* (v) incubation, batching, gestation, (n) session, seat, meeting, seance, posing, (adi) seated, inactive, **2.** session; *synonyms* (n) sitting, conference, bout, consultation, convention, class, period, stretch, discussion, **3.** meeting (360pu); *synonyms* (n) confluence, gathering, concourse, assembly, congress, council, appointment, caucus, encounter, junction, meet, convocation, conclave, forum, confrontation; *antonym* (n) divergence.
- **ЗАСІДАТИ** sit; *synonyms* (*v*) model, pose, rest, ride, place, posture, put, seat, set, squat, meet, hold, convene, locate, mount; *antonyms* (*v*) stand, rise.
- **3ACJIAHHЯ 1.** exile; *synonyms* (*n*) banishment, deportation, expulsion, deportee, outcast, refugee, emigrant, expatriation, (*v*) banish, expatriate, deport, expel, eject, proscribe, (*adj*) exclude; *antonym* (*v*) repatriate, **2.** reference; *synonyms* (*n*) citation, mention, quotation, quote, allusion, bearing, connection, recommendation, innuendo, annotation, character, concern, consultation, (*v*) cite, refer.
- 3аслуга 1. merit; synonyms (n) worth, credit, desert, virtue, goodness, quality, significance, value, dignity, distinction, due, (v) deserve, earn, rate, (adj) excellence,
  2. desert (пустеля); synonyms (n) wilderness, (v) abandon, escape, defect, ditch, forsake, leave, relinquish, abscond, (adj) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, bleak; antonyms (n) bog. (v) stay.
- **3α**CЛУГОВУВАТИ 1. deserve; *synonyms* (*v*) merit, rate, warrant, earn, gain, **2**. earn; *synonyms* (*v*) acquire, attain, deserve, get, win, bring, achieve, bear, net, obtain, profit, yield, clear, fetch, garner; *antonyms* (*v*) lose, spend, **3**. merit; *synonyms* (*n*) worth, credit, desert, virtue, goodness, quality, significance, value, dignity, distinction, due, good, deserving, importance, (*adj*) excellence.
- **ЗАСЛУЖЕНИЙ** just; *synonyms* (*adv*) exactly, hardly, newly, (*adj*) fair, right, correct, equitable, accurate, honest, impartial, barely, fit, good, reasonable, righteous; *antonyms* (*adj*) unfair, biased, wrong.
- **ЗАСМУЧЕНИЙ** sorry; *synonyms* (*adj*) pathetic, contrite, paltry, penitent, piteous, pitiable, pitiful,

- remorseful, sorrowful, base, apologetic, bad, deplorable, mean, miserable; *antonym* (*adj*) unrepentant.
- **Засновник 1**. founder; *synonyms* (*n*) laminitis, patriarch, author, beginner, creator, father, inventor, originator, sink, ancestor, (*v*) fail, flop, collapse, crumple, break, **2**. promoter; *synonyms* (*n*) backer, advocate, booster, sponsor, patron, forwarder, friend, proponent, showman, supporter, champion, impresario, plugger, (*v*) artist, projector.
- **засновувати 1**. found; synonyms (v) erect, establish, base, build, form, constitute, construct, appoint, create, ground, institute, bottom, begin, cast, plant; antonym (adj) misplaced, 2. constitute; synonyms (v) compose, make, commission, comprise, be, found, name, nominate, ordain, organize, designate, configure, consist, enact, frame, 3. establish; synonyms (v) confirm, prove, demonstrate, settle, arrange, ascertain, determine, fix, certify, corroborate, decide, set, show, state, define; antonyms (v) disprove, abolish, terminate, 4. base; synonyms (n) foundation, basis, leg, stand, (adj) abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, infamous; antonyms (n) summit, top, (adj) noble, 5. promote; synonyms (v) advance, encourage, help, aid, advertise, develop, forward, foster, prefer, push, assist, boost, dignify, elevate, (adv) further; antonyms (v) demote, discourage, 6. institute; synonyms (n) academy, association, establishment, institution, organization, society, guild, (v) bring, initiate, inaugurate, introduce, launch, originate, start, install.
- **заснування** 1. establishment; *synonyms* (*n*) business, company, constitution, institution, concern, creation, enactment, formation, organization, settlement, foundation, institute, introduction, administration, colonization; *antonyms* (*n*) elimination, end, 2. foundation; *synonyms* (*n*) base, basis, bottom, establishment, foot, principle, cause, cornerstone, footing, fundamental, origin, support, nucleus, beginning, fundament; *antonym* (*n*) top, 3. promotion; *synonyms* (*n*) furtherance, advance, advancement, advertising, boost, encouragement, hype, preferment, progress, advertisement, cultivation, exaltation, forwarding, publicity, advocacy; *antonyms* (*n*) demotion, neglect.
- **3ACHYBATH** found; *synonyms* (v) erect, establish, base, build, form, constitute, construct, appoint, create, ground, institute, bottom, begin, cast, plant; *antonym* (*adj*) misplaced.
- **3ACHOKOIOBATH 1.** calm; *synonyms* (*adj*) quiet, peaceful, tranquil, (*v*) assuage, appease, cool, still, allay, pacify, easy, moderate, mollify, steady, (*n*) lull, equanimity; *antonyms* (*adj*) agitated, angry, nervous, stormy, wild, annoyed, anxious, enraged, frantic, frightened, intense, irritable, (*v*) agitate, upset, (*n*) agitation, **2.** comfort; *synonyms* (*n*) solace, ease, consolation, relief, aid, amenity, assistance, support, alleviation, convenience, (*v*) cheer, alleviate, soothe, console, (*adj*) calm; *antonyms* (*n*) discomfort, aggravation, (*v*) alarm, annoy, frighten, **3**. reassure; *synonyms* (*v*) assure, encourage, guarantee, comfort, hearten, promise, **4**. quiet; *synonyms* (*adj*) gentle, motionless, placid, tranquilize, collected,

- composed, dull, harmonious, (v) silence, repose, gag, (n) hush, compose, peace, peacefulness; *antonyms* (adj) loud, noisy, talkative, vociferous, active, (n) noise, 5. still; *synonyms* (adv) however, but, nevertheless, yet, more, (adj) quiescent, serene, silent, inactive, mute, sedate, equable, hushed, immobile, (v) even; *antonyms* (adj) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, 6. relieve; *synonyms* (v) mitigate, assist, excuse, free, help, liberate, disengage, deliver, discharge, disembarrass, exempt, palliate, (n) redress, (adj) absolve, relax; *antonyms* (v) worsen, burden.
- 3actaba 1. bond; synonyms (n) association, tie, alliance, deed, agreement, cement, attachment, bail, connection, joint, link, adhesion, (ν) bind, band, adhere, 2. mortgage; synonyms (n) gage, plight, warranty, credit, loan, (ν) bond, pawn, pledge, impawn, 3. guarantee; synonyms (n) assure, guaranty, assurance, warrant, collateral, deposit, security, (ν) certify, promise, engage, endorse, ensure, secure, sponsor, undertake, 4. bail; synonyms (n) surety, guarantee, handle, (ν) deliver, 5. deposit; synonyms (n) charge, residue, heap, hoard, lees, lode, (ν) bank, commit, store, fix, lay, repose, cast, file, leave; antonym (ν) withdraw.
- **заставляти** mortgage; *synonyms* (n) gage, plight, warranty, credit, loan, (v) bond, pawn, pledge, impawn.
- **3ACTABHA** mortgage; *synonyms* (n) gage, plight, warranty, credit, loan, (v) bond, pawn, pledge, impawn.
- застереження 1. caution; synonyms (n) advice, carefulness, precaution, vigilance, wariness, warning, admonition, attention, caveat, circumspection, counsel, (v) care, warn, admonish, advise; antonyms (n) recklessness, carelessness, rashness, 2. qualification; synonyms (n) condition, capability, competence, fitness, limitation, preparation, prerequisite, provision, degree, ability, alteration, modification, (adj) faculty, endowment, property, **3**. reservation; *synonyms* (n) reserve, booking, qualification, modesty, exception, constraint, order, doubt, misgiving, query, saving, uncertainty; *antonym* (n) certainty, **4**. provision; synonyms (n) arrangement, clause, proviso, stock, article, board, requirement, stipulation, store, maintenance, planning, disposal, (v) feed, cater, supply; antonym (n) lack.
- **Застерігати 1.** caution; *synonyms* (*n*) advice, carefulness, precaution, vigilance, wariness, warning, admonition, attention, caveat, circumspection, counsel, (*v*) care, warn, admonish, advise; *antonyms* (*n*) recklessness, carelessness, rashness, **2.** Warn; *synonyms* (*v*) caution, inform, alert, threaten, exhort, notify, reprove, tell, deter, discourage, dissuade, instruct, acquaint, bid, dehort.
- **застібати** button; *synonyms* (*n*) knop, buckle, bud, clasp, fastening, key, push, (*v*) knob, fasten, (*adj*) pin, tie.
- **3ACTIŬ** depression; *synonyms* (n) basin, cavity, dejection, decline, dent, dip, hole, hollow, impression, slump, trench, trough, drop, recess, collapse; *antonyms* (n) cheerfulness, happiness, boom, elation, encouragement, inflation, outcrop.
- **ЗАСТОСОВНИЙ** applicable; *synonyms* (*adj*) relevant, germane, pertinent, proper, suitable, applicative, applicatory, appropriate, apropos, available, fitting,

- relative, admissible, (n) felicitous, happy; **antonyms** (adj) unsuitable, irrelevant.
- **3actocobybatu 1.** apply; *synonyms* (v) dedicate, devote, employ, ask, consume, exercise, resort, use, utilize, lay, appeal, address, administer, consecrate, (n) give, 2. employ; *synonyms* (v) apply, engage, exploit, hire, wield, busy, exert, occupy, ply, retain, spend, take, work, (n) employment, service; *antonyms* (v) fire, dismiss, 3. practise; *synonyms* (v) do, drill, execute, perform, practice, rehearse, act, answer, arrange, behave, bore, cause, coif, coiffe, coiffure.
- **3actocobybatucs** obtain; *synonyms* (v) gain, acquire, get, have, achieve, attain, earn, accomplish, derive, effect, buy, collect, extract, find, gather; *antonym* (v) lose.
- застосування 1. application; synonyms (n) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, demand, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, call, claim, 2. adaptation; synonyms (n) accommodation, adjustment, alteration, version, reworking, adaption, conversion, fitness, modification, variation, 3. administration; synonyms (n) management, direction, organization, running, power, execution, executive, government, leadership, reign, rule, supervision, department, application, incumbency.
- **ЗАСТРАХОВАНИЙ** assured; *synonyms* (*adj*) certain, confident, secure, sure, assertive, definite, guaranteed, positive, convinced, reliable, safe, surefire; *antonyms* (*adj*) insecure, uncertain.
- Застуда 1. chill; synonyms (n) coolness, (adj) cold, bleak, icy, chilly, frosty, depressing, freezing, frigid, (v) cool, freeze, dispirit, congeal, damp, dampen; antonyms (n) warmth, (v) heat, warm, 2. cold; synonyms (adj) aloof, callous, distant, indifferent, apathetic, dead, dull, hard, heartless, impassive, inhospitable, lukewarm, reserved, (n) chilliness, chill; antonyms (adj) friendly, hot, burning, prepared, affectionate, loving, soporific.
- заступник 1. deputy; synonyms (n) agent, surrogate, alternate, delegate, substitute, ambassador, assistant, replacement, representative, vicar, spokesman, envoy, help, (adj) proxy, acting, 2. promoter; synonyms (n) backer, advocate, booster, sponsor, patron, forwarder, friend, proponent, showman, supporter, champion, impresario, plugger, (v) artist, projector, 3. substitute; synonyms (adj) alternative, ersatz, makeshift, (n) deputy, backup, (v) shift, change, replace, exchange, sub, cover, alter, commute, deputise, deputize, 4. patron; synonyms (n) benefactor, client, customer, defender, helper, frequenter, abettor, buyer, fautor, favorer, guarantor, partisan, consumer, guardian, guest.
- 3ACTYΠΗИЦТВО 1. patronage; synonyms (n) support, backing, clientele, condescension, favor, trade, assistance, aid, auspices, championship, countenance, help, business, (v) keep, sustain, 2. protection (3αΧИСТ); synonyms (n) defense, care, conservation, cover, custody, defence, guardianship, security, shelter, aegis, preservation, shield, bulwark, hedge, (v) guard; antonym (n) destruction.
- 3acyB 1. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow,

- 2. fast; *synonyms* (*adj*) dissolute, firm, agile, debauched, fixed, hurried, instant, quick, rapid, staunch, brisk, (*adv*) soon, hard, close, (*n*) diet; *antonyms* (*adj*) sluggish, loose, (*adv*) slow, slowly, leisurely, (*v*) gorge, (*n*) binge, 3. bolt; *synonyms* (*n*) arrow, dash, pin, catch, (*v*) bar, abscond, gobble, latch, lock, escape, decamp, devour, fasten, gulp, (*adv*) bang; *antonyms* (*v*) nibble, unbolt, unlock
- **ЗАСУДЖЕННЯ** conviction; *synonyms* (*n*) assurance, belief, certainty, condemnation, confidence, persuasion, faith, trust, firmness, creed, determination, doctrine, judgment, reliance, security; *antonym* (*n*) uncertainty.
- **ЗАСУДЖУВАТИ** sentence (речення); *synonyms* (n) judgment, finding, decision, condemnation, conviction, phrase, penalty, punishment, verdict, (v) condemn, convict, doom, judge, damn, adjudge.
- 3ACYXA drought; synonyms (n) famine, parchedness, absence, dryness, lack, scarcity, thirst, drawing, (adj) aridity; antonym (n) wetness.
- **Затаювати** conceal; *synonyms* (*v*) cover, disguise, hide, bury, cloak, mask, obscure, screen, shield, smother, suppress, cloud, ensconce, muffle, (*n*) veil; *antonyms* (*v*) reveal, show, expose, divulge, clarify, uncover.
- затвердження 1. validation; synonyms (n) confirmation, proof, substantiation, verification, establishment, justification, approval, corroboration, administration, basis, brass, constitution, demonstration, ecesis, explanation, 2. approval; synonyms (n) acceptance, applause, approbation, acclaim, agreement, recognition, admiration, acclamation, acknowledgment, acquiescence, appreciation, commendation, consent, permission, praise; antonyms (n) disapproval, rejection, condemnation, scorn, criticism.
- 3ATBEPДЖУВАТИ 1. appoint; synonyms (v) assign, nominate, accredit, delegate, designate, prescribe, set, create, choose, commission, constitute, depute, destine, elect, (n) name, 2. confirm; synonyms (v) affirm, approve, corroborate, establish, prove, validate, verify, clinch, assert, assure, authenticate, authorize, certify, demonstrate, justify; antonyms (v) disprove, contradict, 3. approve (схвалювати); synonyms (v) sanction, adopt, accept, acknowledge, allow, admit, agree, endorse, let, ratify, support, applaud, acquiesce, confirm, okay; antonyms (v) reject, censure, condemn, disapprove, forbid, veto.
- **ЗАТВЕРДИТИ** confirm; *synonyms* (v) affirm, approve, corroborate, establish, prove, validate, verify, clinch, assert, assure, authenticate, authorize, certify, demonstrate, justify; *antonyms* (v) disprove, contradict.
- **ЗАТВЕРДІННЯ** consolidation; *synonyms* (*n*) amalgamation, unification, combination, fortification, union, condensation, joinder, coalition, integration.
- **3ATEMHOBATI** obscure; *synonyms* (*adj*) cloudy, dim, dark, gloomy, ambiguous, concealed, darken, hidden, incomprehensible, muddy, mysterious, clandestine, (*v*) hide, blur, cloud; *antonyms* (*adj*) clear, noticeable, simple, obvious, distinct, mainstream, (*v*) clarify
- **Затишний** cosy; *synonyms* (*adj*) cozy, companionable, snug, sociable, clubbable, conversable, (*n*) cosey, (*v*) comfortable.

- **3aTiHoκ 1.** shade; *synonyms* (n) screen, tinge, color, ghost, hue, blind, cloud, apparition, conceal, darkness, dye, (v) darken, shadow, tint, cover; *antonyms* (n) light, brightness, **2.** shadow; *synonyms* (n) shade, tail, trace, hint, follower, gloom, phantom, reflection, umbrage, (v) eclipse, follow, obscure, overshadow, track, dog.
- **затока** bay; *synonyms* (*n*) alcove, bark, recess, cry, harbor, fiord, sound, cove, embayment, gulf, (*adj*) brown, (*v*) yap, roar, bellow, howl.
- **Затоплювати** sink; *synonyms* (*n*) sag, basin, (*v*) decline, dip, droop, fall, set, descend, drop, fell, bury, collapse, decay, flag, founder; *antonyms* (*v*) rise, float.
- **3ATOP 1.** lock; *synonyms* (*n*) curl, hook, padlock, (*v*) bolt, bar, close, latch, engage, fasten, hug, hold, interlock, secure, shut, (*adj*) hair; *antonyms* (*v*) unlock, open, **2.** jam; *synonyms* (*n*) crush, crowd, fix, squeeze, congestion, conserve, dilemma, hole, (*v*) block, cram, fill, force, gorge, hinder, impede; *antonym* (*v*) free.
- **3ATPATA** consumption; *synonyms* (n) expenditure, decline, use, expense, diminution, exhaustion, ingestion, intake, phthisis, uptake, decay, eating, (ν) tabes, attenuation, collapse.
- затримання 1. detention; synonyms (n) delay, arrest, custody, confinement, apprehension, captivity, detainment, constraint, capture, detain, hold, imprisonment, incarceration, internment, (v) keep; antonyms (n) freedom, release, 2. apprehension; synonyms (n) alarm, comprehension, dread, foreboding, misgiving, trepidation, understanding, appreciation, anticipation, agitation, conception, concern, (adj) anxiety, care, (v) doubt; antonyms (n) reassurance, confidence, calmness.
- **3ATPUMATU** catch; *synonyms* (v) arrest, capture, hook, apprehend, get, acquire, ensnare, intercept, (n) haul, hitch, trick, bolt, clasp, grab, pawl; *antonym* (v) release.
- затримка 1. delay; synonyms (n) pause, arrest, deferment, wait, stay, deferral, extension, (v) defer, check, postpone, reserve, adjourn, break, detain, hesitate; antonyms (n) punctuality, decisiveness, (v) rush, advance, 2. arrest; synonyms (n) stop, halt, apprehension, custody, hold, detention, (v) capture, catch, apprehend, collar, delay, get, hinder, inhibit, nail; antonyms (v) release, discharge, 3. retention; synonyms (n) memory, holding, keeping, possession, restraint, retentiveness, retentivity, absorption, impropriation, monopoly; antonym (n) removal, 4. stop; synonyms (v) stand, block, close, interrupt, obstruct, plug, disrupt, dwell, finish, impede, intercept, (n) end, bar, cease, curb; antonyms (v) continue, start, begin, encourage, permit, prolong.
- **3atphmybatu 1**. delay; *synonyms* (n) pause, arrest, deferment, wait, stay, deferral, extension, (v) defer, check, postpone, reserve, adjourn, break, detain, hesitate; *antonyms* (n) punctuality, decisiveness, (v) rush, advance, **2**. arrest; *synonyms* (n) stop, halt, apprehension, custody, hold, detention, (v) capture, catch, apprehend, collar, delay, get, hinder, inhibit, nail; *antonyms* (v) release, discharge, **3**. block; *synonyms* (n) bar, barricade, pad, clog, cluster, barrier, blocking,

- chock, (v) encumber, lock, obstruct, parry, plug, blockade, (adj) lump; antonyms (v) free, unblock, open.
- **3ATPUMYBATUCЯ** stay; *synonyms* (v) remain, reside, rest, prop, stop, abide, continue, endure, pause, arrest, bide, dwell, support, (n) delay, halt; *antonyms* (v) leave, change, abscond, depart.
- **3ATYMAHIOBATH** fog; *synonyms* (*n*) cloud, haze, vapor, brume, confusion, daze, damp, smoke, (*v*) mist, confuse, blur, dim, becloud, befog, darken.
- 3ayBaжehh 1. observation; synonyms (n) comment, observance, remark, attention, inspection, notice, contemplation, conception, consideration, perception, reflection, idea, notion, (v) note, heed, 2. remark; synonyms (n) observation, regard, mind, commentary, word, declaration, statement, (v) observe, mention, perceive, mark, discern, see, (adj) look, attend.
- 3AYBAЖYBATU 1. observe; synonyms (v) celebrate, comment, notice, commemorate, mind, guard, behold, discover, follow, heed, keep, look, mark, mention, note; antonyms (v) ignore, feel, 2. remark; synonyms (n) observation, regard, commentary, observance, reflection, word, declaration, statement, quip, (v) observe, perceive, discern, see, detect, (adj) attend.
- **ЗАФІКСОВАНИЙ** stated; *synonyms* (*adj*) set, declared, explicit, regular, certain, settled, (*adv*) fixed, given.
- 3axBat 1. delight; synonyms (n) joy, amusement, pleasure, rejoicing, bliss, delectation, gladness, (v) charm, amuse, please, ravish, captivate, cheer, enrapture, gratify; antonyms (n) sorrow, misery, (v) depress, displease, 2. admiration; synonyms (n) wonder, adoration, appreciation, esteem, reverence, amazement, estimation, regard, awe, liking, approbation, astonishment, compliment, credit, deference; antonyms (n) disrespect, disdain, criticism.
- **захворювання 1**. disease; *synonyms* (*n*) ailment, condition, illness, sickness, complaint, infirmity, affection, affliction, bug, disorder, ill, evil, infection, malady, (*v*) distemper, **2**. illness; *synonyms* (*n*) disease, attack, pain, trouble.
- **Захисний** defensive; *synonyms* (*adj*) protective, preventive, protecting, safeguarding, anticipatory, blocking, defendant, defensory, excusatory, fenceful, justificative, justificatory, opposed, preventative, suspicious; *antonym* (*adj*) offensive.
- **Захисник** defender; *synonyms* (*n*) advocate, champion, guard, guardian, patron, protector, exponent, keeper, proponent, upholder, adherent, support; *antonyms* (*n*) assailant, attacker.
- 3axuct 1. protection; synonyms (n) defense, care, conservation, cover, custody, defence, guardianship, security, shelter, aegis, auspices, preservation, shield, bulwark, (v) guard; antonym (n) destruction, 2. defence; synonyms (n) vindication, denial, abnegation, demurrer, refutation, demur, demurral, disproof, falsification, falsifying, prohibition, whitewash, 3. apology; synonyms (n) excuse, plea, amends, justification, regret, reason, alibi, explanation, acknowledgment, apologia, reparation, 4. championship; synonyms (n) backing, patronage, support, title.

- 3AXUCTUTU 1. defend; synonyms (v) cover, guard, assert, justify, protect, advocate, champion, maintain, shield, support, apologize, hold, preserve, safeguard, shelter; antonyms (v) attack, prosecute, 2. protect; synonyms (v) defend, keep, hide, conceal, conserve, save, screen, vindicate, insure, cushion, patronize, shade, ensure, fence, (n) ward; antonyms (v) expose, neglect, risk
- 3AXUCTOK 1. asylum; synonyms (n) refuge, sanctuary, shelter, haven, home, institution, madhouse, retreat, cover, harbor, protection, 2. shelter; synonyms (n) guard, asylum, protect, security, shield, hut, covert, shade, lee, lodge, (v) screen, defend, hide, keep, (adj) defense; antonym (v) expose.
- **3AXUILIATU 1.** defend; *synonyms* (v) cover, guard, assert, justify, protect, advocate, champion, maintain, shield, support, apologize, hold, preserve, safeguard, shelter; *antonyms* (v) attack, prosecute, **2**. protect; *synonyms* (v) defend, keep, hide, conceal, conserve, save, screen, vindicate, insure, cushion, patronize, shade, ensure, fence, (n) ward; *antonyms* (v) expose, neglect, risk, **3**. assert; *synonyms* (v) affirm, allege, claim, declare, say, argue, aver, avow, insist, protest, show, swear, announce, assure, attest; *antonym* (v) deny, **4**. cover; *synonyms* (v) coat, top, bury, cloak, veil, wrap, (n) blind, blanket, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, spread; *antonyms* (v) reveal, uncover.
- **3AXVIЩATUCЯ** defend; *synonyms* (v) cover, guard, assert, justify, protect, advocate, champion, maintain, shield, support, apologize, hold, preserve, safeguard, shelter; *antonyms* (v) attack, prosecute.
- 3АХИЩЕНИЙ 1. covered; synonyms (adj) hidden, veiled, concealed, covert, coated, masked, obscured, secret, shrouded, thick, wrapped, (prep) cloaked; antonyms (adj) bare, naked, 2. protected; synonyms (v) disguised, hid, (adj) secure, immune, saved, secured, sheltered, covered, comfortable, confined, cosseted, dependable, good, guaranteed, impregnable.
- **Захід** West; *synonyms* (n) occident, w, tungsten, watt, wolfram, (v) south.
- **західний 1.** western; *synonyms* (*adj*) westerly, occidental, descending, falling, occasive, occiduous, ponent, westbound, **2.** west; *synonyms* (*n*) occident, w, tungsten, watt, wolfram, (*v*) south.
- **3AXOПИТИ** capture; *synonyms* (v) bag, catch, take, apprehend, captivate, carry, ensnare, get, seize, bewitch, acquire, beguile, (n) arrest, seizure, apprehension; *antonyms* (v) release, surrender.
- **Захоплений** enthusiastic; *synonyms* (*adj*) ardent, eager, hearty, active, cordial, anxious, avid, devoted, excited, fiery, passionate, animated, vehement, heated, (*n*) buoyant; *antonyms* (*adj*) unenthusiastic, apathetic, indifferent, lukewarm, lethargic.
- **Захоплення 1**. admiration; *synonyms* (*n*) wonder, adoration, appreciation, esteem, reverence, amazement, estimation, regard, awe, liking, approbation, astonishment, compliment, credit, deference; *antonyms* (*n*) disrespect, disdain, criticism, **2**. delight; *synonyms* (*n*) joy, amusement, pleasure, rejoicing, bliss, delectation, gladness, (*v*) charm, amuse, please, ravish, captivate, cheer, enrapture, gratify; *antonyms* (*n*) sorrow,

- misery, (v) depress, displease, **3**. capture; synonyms (v) bag, catch, take, apprehend, carry, ensnare, get, seize, bewitch, acquire, beguile, collar, (n) arrest, seizure, apprehension; antonyms (v) release, surrender, **4**. grab; synonyms (v) capture, snatch, appropriate, clasp, clutch, fascinate, grapple, rob, assume, attract, confiscate, grasp, gripe, plunder, receive, **5**. hold; synonyms (v) keep, detain, endure, adhere, bear, comprise, contain, entertain, have, confine, delay, maintain, retain, (n) grip, handle, **6**. dementia; synonyms (n) insanity, lunacy, mania, delirium, demency, dementedness, aberration, alienation, delusion, hallucination, illusion, monomania, (adi) dementation.
- **захоплювати 1**. delight; synonyms (n) joy, amusement, pleasure, rejoicing, bliss, delectation, gladness, (v) charm, amuse, please, ravish, captivate, cheer, enrapture, gratify; antonyms (n) sorrow, misery, (v) depress, displease, 2. bag; synonyms (n) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (v) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net, 3. grab; synonyms (v) get, snatch, appropriate, clasp, clutch, fascinate, grapple, rob, seize, assume, attract, confiscate, (n) arrest, seizure, collar, 4. possess; synonyms (v) have, hold, occupy, wield, bear, enjoy, keep, maintain, obsess, retain, consume, feature, (n) hazard, (adj) own, 5. occupy; synonyms (v) engage, engross, fill, absorb, employ, inhabit, invade, possess, conquer, busy, take, attack, dwell, (n) entertain, interest; antonym (v) leave, 6. take; synonyms (v) admit, adopt, carry, obtain, return, borrow, pick, acquire, bring, claim, convey, demand, grab, (phr) accept, receive; antonyms (v) give, refuse, abstain, add, lose,
- **ЗАХОПЛЮЮЧИЙ** catching; *synonyms* (*adj*) contagious, communicable, infectious, epidemic, (*n*) discovery, take.
- **зацікавити** interest; *synonyms* (*n*) concern, advantage, affair, account, gain, hobby, behalf, eagerness, enthusiasm, sake, (*v*) engage, care, benefit, appeal, affect; *antonyms* (*n*) indifference, apathy, (*v*) bore.
- зацікавлений 1. interested; synonyms (adj) concerned, curious, involved, inquiring, inquisitive, keen, attentive; antonyms (adj) apathetic, uninterested, 2. engaged; synonyms (adj) busy, occupied, betrothed, affianced, employed, engrossed, reserved, absorbed, working, pledged, bespoken, booked, immersed, intent, rapt; antonyms (adj) available, free, 3. curious; synonyms (adj) abnormal, funny, interested, odd, peculiar, strange, unusual, bizarre, extraordinary, quaint, queer, quizzical, remarkable, singular, weird; antonyms (adj) normal, incurious, ordinary, 4. concerned; synonyms (adj) anxious, careful, thoughful, apprehensive, considerate, nervous, solicitous, worried, affected, caring, fearful, troubled, uneasy, upset, distraught; antonyms (adj) unconcerned, uncaring, unfeeling.
- **3AUIKABJIOBATI** interest; *synonyms* (n) concern, advantage, affair, account, gain, hobby, behalf, eagerness, enthusiasm, sake, (v) engage, care, benefit, appeal, affect; *antonyms* (n) indifference, apathy, (v) bore.
- **3A4APOBYBATH 1**. charm; *synonyms* (n) allure, amulet, appeal, spell, attraction, conjure, (v) attract,

- captivate, bewitch, fascinate, enchant, entrance, beguile, capture, enamor; *antonyms* (*n*) repulsion, ugliness, (*v*) repel, **2**. spell; *synonyms* (*n*) magic, fascination, bout, conjuration, incantation, period, sorcery, enchantment, turn, span, bewitchment, space, captivation, attack, (*v*) charm.
- **3A 4A PYBAHH 9** charming; *synonyms* (*adj*) amiable, beautiful, attractive, captivating, delightful, enchanting, lovely, pleasing, winning, nice, adorable, agreeable, alluring, amusing, appealing; *antonyms* (*adj*) repellent, unappealing, unpleasant.
- **3AUAPYBATI** charm; *synonyms* (*n*) allure, amulet, appeal, spell, attraction, conjure, (*v*) attract, captivate, bewitch, fascinate, enchant, entrance, beguile, capture, enamor; *antonyms* (*n*) repulsion, ugliness, (*v*) repel.
- зачинений closed; synonyms (v) close, tight, accurate, adjoining, attentive, (adj) blind, blocked, finished, shut, congested, fastened, exclusive, insular, stopped, airtight; antonym (adj) open.
- **3A4UHHTTU** close; *synonyms* (*adj*) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, (*v*) compact, stop, conclude, (*adv*) by, about, (*n*) end, finish, conclusion; *antonyms* (*adj*) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (*v*) open, start.
- **зачиняти 1**. close; *synonyms* (*adj*) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, (*v*) compact, stop, conclude, (*adv*) by, about, (*n*) end, finish, conclusion; *antonyms* (*adj*) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (*v*) open, start, 2. shut; *synonyms* (*v*) close, bar, seal, fasten, exclude, lock, (*adj*) closed, cut, (*n*) confine.
- **зачинятися** shut; *synonyms* (*v*) close, bar, seal, fasten, exclude, lock, (*adj*) closed, cut, tight, (*n*) end, finish, confine; *antonym* (*v*) open.
- **Заява 1**. declaration; *synonyms* (*n*) announcement, affirmation, assertion, allegation, avowal, claim, expression, pronouncement, statement, enunciation, acknowledgment, admission, decree, deposition, dictum; *antonym* (*n*) denial, **2**. application; *synonyms* (*n*) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, demand, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, call, coating, **3**. statement; *synonyms* (*n*) account, declaration, communication, instruction, command, description, proposition, profession, argument, bill, remark, word, bulletin, explanation, record, **4**. claim; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, privilege, right, title, application, (*v*) ask, assert, exact, arrogate, contend, need, require, requisition, want, pretend; *antonyms* (*v*) deny, disclaim, forfeit.
- **ЗАЯВИТИ** declare; *synonyms* (v) announce, advertise, affirm, allege, assert, say, attest, acknowledge, admit, aver, avow, proclaim, call, divulge, (*adj*) communicate; *antonym* (v) deny.
- 3AЯВКА 1. claim; synonyms (n) call, charge, allegation, privilege, right, title, (v) demand, ask, assert, exact, arrogate, contend, need, require, requisition; antonyms (v) deny, disclaim, forfeit, 2. application; synonyms (n) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, claim, coating, employment.
- **Заявляти** 1. announce; *synonyms* (v) advertise, herald, declare, enunciate, proclaim, return, affirm, annunciate,

- broadcast, communicate, foretell, intimate, promulgate, publicize, publish, **2**. claim; *synonyms* (*n*) call, charge, allegation, privilege, right, title, (*v*) demand, ask, assert, exact, arrogate, contend, need, require, requisition; *antonyms* (*v*) deny, disclaim, forfeit, **3**. assert; *synonyms* (*v*) allege, claim, say, argue, aver, avow, insist, maintain, protest, show, swear, announce, assure, attest, defend, **4**. declare; *synonyms* (*v*) acknowledge, admit, divulge, express, pronounce, speak, confess, promise, adjudge, decree, disclose, hold, impart, manifest, notify, **5**. state (держава); *synonyms* (*n*) nation, position, country, kingdom, place, circumstances, commonwealth, condition, estate, pomp, predicament, (*v*) expound, mention, articulate, (*adj*) national; *antonym* (*adj*) private.
- **ЗБАЛАНСОВАНИЙ** balanced; *synonyms* (*adj*) equal, even, firm, regular, stable, steady, harmonious, impartial, steadfast, symmetrical, uniform, fast, fixed, secure, unprejudiced; *antonyms* (*adj*) biased, unbalanced, unfair.
- **збентеження 1**. confusion; *synonyms* (*n*) bewilderment, chaos, commotion, disarray, agitation, bedlam, clutter, disorder, distraction, disturbance, pandemonium, tumult, bustle, huddle, upset; *antonyms* (*n*) clarity, order, **2**. embarrassment; *synonyms* (*n*) confusion, difficulty, dilemma, discomfiture, quandary, humiliation, mortification, shame, uneasiness, chagrin, anxiety, disgrace, (*v*) distress, embarrass, (*adj*) perplexity.
- **36EPEFTM** preserve; *synonyms* (*v*) maintain, keep, defend, guard, hold, save, cure, pickle, protect, uphold, (*n*) conserve, jam, jelly, conserves, marmalade; *antonym* (*v*) destroy.
- **збереження 1.** reservation; *synonyms* (n) reserve, limitation, booking, condition, qualification, modesty, exception, constraint, order, doubt, misgiving, query, saving, uncertainty; *antonym* (n) certainty, **2.** saving; *synonyms* (n) economy, conservation, preservation, rescue, cut, deliverance, delivery, (*adj*) economical, frugal, thrifty, save, chary, except, excepting, sparing; *antonym* (n) extravagance, **3.** preservation; *synonyms* (n) maintenance, keeping, protection, custody, upkeep, care, salvation, security, creation; *antonyms* (n) destruction, extinction, release.
- **зберігання** 1. conservation; *synonyms* (n) maintenance, preservation, upkeep, keep, custody, protection; *antonym* (n) destruction, 2. keeping; *synonyms* (n) care, conservation, charge, guardianship, holding, observance, retention, safekeeping, trust, ward, coloring; *antonym* (n) end, 3. storage; *synonyms* (n) depot, memory, stock, accumulation, entrepot, store, reposition, storehouse, warehousing, 4. custody; *synonyms* (n) detention, confinement, captivity, security, hold, control, imprisonment, incarceration, keeping, clasp, clutches, custodianship, (*adj*) tutelage; *antonyms* (n) release, freedom, 5. preservation; *synonyms* (n) salvation, saving, creation; *antonym* (n) extinction.
- зберігати 1. preserve; *synonyms* (*v*) maintain, keep, defend, guard, hold, save, cure, pickle, protect, uphold, (*n*) conserve, jam, jelly, conserves, marmalade; *antonym* (*v*) destroy, 2. keep (тримати); *synonyms* (*v*) preserve, retain, continue, have, celebrate, confine, observe,

- reserve, commemorate, check, harbor, direct, rear, (n) custody, maintenance; antonyms (v) dump, lose, 3. retain; synonyms (v) employ, engage, hire, own, detain, possess, occupy, remember, restrain, withhold, arrest, bear, carry, contain, control, 4. store; synonyms (n) hoard, shop, market, business, emporium, heap, supply, accumulation, (v) stock, accumulate, garner, amass, bank, cache, collect.
- **36EPIFATUCS** last; *synonyms* (v) endure, continue, hold, exist, live, dwell, (n) abide, conclusion, (adj) extreme, closing, final, ultimate, conclusive, concluding, farthest; *antonyms* (n) opening, (adj) first.
- **3EMPAHHЯ 1.** collection; *synonyms* (*n*) accumulation, assembly, assortment, bundle, gathering, set, bunch, cluster, compilation, heap, mass, pile, variety, batch, (*v*) assemblage, **2.** gathering; *synonyms* (*n*) collection, concourse, congregation, crowd, convention, crew, gather, meeting, throng, bevy, function, audience, group, multitude, (*v*) muster, **3.** picking; *synonyms* (*adj*) careful, nice, (*n*) pick, option, selection, alternative, choice, burling, cream, filling, pickax, pickaxe, preference, pilfering, plectron.
- 3бирати 1. collect; synonyms (v) assemble, accumulate, amass, gather, pick, accrue, acquire, aggregate, cluster, collate, congregate, convene, cull, harvest, hoard; antonyms (v) disperse, distribute, 2. gather; synonyms (v) deduce, collect, compile, flock, garner, meet, tuck, earn, rally, reap, derive, converge, extract, conclude, (n) fold; antonym (v) scatter, 3. pick; synonyms (v) clean, opt, break, choose, draw, (n) alternative, elite, best, choice, option, selection, (adj) cream, select, mattock, flower, 4. bag; synonyms (n) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (v) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net.
- збиратися 1. gather; synonyms (v) deduce, convene, accumulate, amass, assemble, collect, compile, congregate, flock, garner, meet, tuck, earn, rally, (n) fold; antonyms (v) disperse, scatter, 2. band; synonyms (n) cluster, party, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, (v) ring, combine, 3. meet (зустрічати); synonyms (v) converge, find, encounter, fulfill, gather, answer, cross, confront, intersect, abut, concur, adjoin, face, (adj) fit, fitting; antonyms (v) avoid, diverge, 4. rally; synonyms (n) assembly, meeting, convention, gathering, demonstration, (v) banter, muster, chaff, mobilize, recover, ridicule, tease, jeer, bait, (adj) encourage; antonym (v) demobilize.
- **36BYPAY** collector; *synonyms* (*n*) accumulator, receiver, gatherer, caporal, choregus, commissioner, flugelman, linkboy, woon, aggregator, bearer, cashier, investor, hoarder, magpie.
- **3EHTKU** damage; *synonyms* (n) blemish, injury, wound, loss, cost, detriment, disadvantage, impairment, (v) harm, hurt, abuse, injure, afflict, disfigure, (adj) impair; antonyms (n) service, (v) conserve, enhance, repair, bolster.
- 36μτοκ 1. loss (Βτρατα); synonyms (n) hurt, damage, defeat, detriment, injury, deficit, deprivation, destruction, forfeit, forfeiture, bereavement, decrease, cost, fall, (adj) harm; antonyms (n) appearance, retrieval,

- victory, gaining, income, recovery, **2**. Waste; *synonyms* (*n*) desert, refuse, trash, dissipation, garbage, (*adj*) spoil, desolate, barren, (*v*) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, devastate, dissipate; *antonyms* (*v*) conserve, save, **3**. sacrifice; *synonyms* (*n*) immolation, loss, (*v*) offering, oblation, immolate, offer, give, lose, relinquish, grant, propose, contribute, present, victimize, devote.
- **36IF** coincidence; *synonyms* (*n*) accordance, chance, accident, conjunction, coexistence, concurrence, correspondence, appulse; *antonym* (*n*) design.
- **36iratucs 1**. coincide; *synonyms* (*v*) accord, agree, concur, accede, correspond, accept, consort, square, check, consent, fit, harmonize, match, resemble, (*adj*) meet, **2**. consist; *synonyms* (*v*) be, belong, lie, comprise, exist, reside, (*n*) abide.
- **ЗБІГОВИСЬКО** gathering; *synonyms* (n) assembly, accumulation, collection, concourse, assemblage, congregation, crowd, compilation, convention, crew, gather, meeting, throng, bunch, bevy.
- **ЗБІЖЖЯ** corn; *synonyms* (*n*) maize, clavus, cereals, callus, wheat, grain, commonplace, (*v*) feed, keep.
- **збільшення 1.** gain; *synonyms* (*v*) acquire, benefit, derive, attain, catch, earn, get, win, achieve, advance, make, (*n*) profit, earnings, acquisition, advantage; *antonyms* (*v*) lose, (*n*) loss, **2**. increase; *synonyms* (*n*) gain, addition, augmentation, boom, expansion, extension, growth, (*v*) accrue, extend, grow, aggrandize, expand, enhance, enlarge, (*adj*) augment; *antonyms* (*n*) reduction, contraction, decline, (*v*) decrease, reduce, diminish, drop, deteriorate, **3**. accession; *synonyms* (*n*) acceptance, increase, access, accretion, agreement, arrival, assent, coming, entrance, increment.
- **36LJIBHIVBATH 1.** increase; *synonyms* (*n*) gain, addition, augmentation, boom, expansion, extension, (*v*) advance, accrue, extend, grow, aggrandize, expand, enhance, enlarge, (*adj*) augment; *antonyms* (*n*) reduction, contraction, decline, (*v*) decrease, reduce, diminish, drop, deteriorate, **2.** enhance; *synonyms* (*v*) elevate, beautify, raise, amplify, better, deepen, increase, intensify, embellish, adom, aggravate, amend, boost, compound, develop; *antonyms* (*v*) damage, taint.
- **36IJIBILYBATUCS 1.** grow; *synonyms* (v) advance, augment, develop, enlarge, expand, come, emerge, become, farm, get, rise, spring, turn, breed, accrue; *antonyms* (v) decrease, weaken, shrink, **2.** rise; *synonyms* (n) elevation, lift, ascent, progress, raise, swell, raising, advancement, (v) climb, mount, ascend, increase, heave, arise, jump; *antonyms* (n) reduction, (v) fall, drop, sink, descend, plummet, retire.
- 36IP 1. assembly; synonyms (n) gathering, meeting, collection, congregation, convention, fabrication, multitude, assembling, body, chamber, cluster, company, conclave, concourse, (v) assemblage, 2. gather; synonyms (v) deduce, convene, accumulate, amass, assemble, collect, compile, congregate, flock, garner, meet, tuck, earn, rally, (n) fold; antonyms (v) disperse, scatter, 3. meet (3ycrpiчати); synonyms (v) converge, find, encounter, fulfill, gather, answer, cross, confront, intersect, abut, concur, adjoin, face, (adj) fit, fitting; antonyms (v) avoid, diverge.

- 36ipκa collection; synonyms (n) accumulation, assembly, assortment, bundle, gathering, set, bunch, cluster, compilation, heap, mass, pile, variety, batch, (ν) assemblage.
- **збірник** corpus; *synonyms* (*n*) body, substance, material, matter, principal, stuff, pabulum, core, element, hyle, mass, parenchyma, principle, quantity, substratum.
- 36opu 1. meeting; synonyms (n) confluence, convention, gathering, concourse, assembly, conference, congress, council, appointment, caucus, encounter, junction, meet, convocation, conclave; antonym (n) divergence, 2. gathering; synonyms (n) accumulation, collection, assemblage, congregation, crowd, compilation, crew, gather, meeting, throng, bunch, bevy, function, audience, cluster, 3. congregation; synonyms (n) congregating, flock, fold, company, group, multitude, conflux, 4. assembly; synonyms (n) fabrication, assembling, body, chamber, construction, legislature, aggregation, agora, concentration, building, pack, forum, mass, mob, muster, 5. session; synonyms (n) seance, sitting, bout, consultation, class, period, stretch, discussion.
- **3EO4EHHЯ** departure; *synonyms* (n) death, exit, leave, depart, deviation, divergence, parting, aberration, digression, going, leaving, passing, takeoff, (v) decease, demise; *antonyms* (n) arrival, appearance.
- **збройний** armed; *synonyms* (*adj*) equipped, military, fitted, aggressive, compulsory, fit, forcible, prepared, ready, violent, weaponed, martial, organized; *antonyms* (*adj*) unarmed, unprotected.
- 36pos 1. weapon; synonyms (n) gun, arm, missile, artillery, blade, firearm, spear, steel, tool, implement, ordnance, bat, bludgeon, branch, club, 2. arm; synonyms (n) wing, bay, department, division, limb, might, offshoot, power, section, sleeve, weapon, (v) equip, furnish, outfit, provide; antonym (v) disarm, 3. arms; synonyms (n) armament, weaponry, shield, blazon, munition, order, weapons, (v) war, 4. arsenal; synonyms (n) armory, armoury, store, depository, arms, armaments, dump, factory, guns, inventory, missiles, plant, stockpile, storeroom, supply.
- **збувати** market; *synonyms* (n) fair, shop, bazaar, marketplace, trade, mart, outlet, store, (v) demand, sell, commercialize, exchange, handle, merchandise, sale.
- **3буджений 1.** excited; *synonyms* (*adj*) agitated, ablaze, emotional, enthusiastic, frantic, ardent, aroused, delirious, fervent, heated, impassioned, passionate, warm, elated, (*v*) animated; *antonyms* (*adj*) calm, cool, unexcited, **2**. tense; *synonyms* (*adj*) strained, edgy, nervous, taut, stiff, uptight, jumpy, wired, stretched, jittery, tight, (*v*) overwrought, strain, extend, tighten; *antonyms* (*adj*) relaxed, comfortable, tranquil, loose, (*v*) relax.
- **збудження 1**. excitement; *synonyms* (*n*) commotion, emotion, agitation, animation, disturbance, eagerness, elation, enthusiasm, taking, effervescence, excitation, exhilaration, kick, thrill, tumult; *antonyms* (*n*) tedium, dullness, boredom, tediousness, **2**. exciting; *synonyms* (*adj*) excited, breathtaking, exhilarating, impressive, moving, provocative, rousing, stirring, dramatic, emotional, agitated, absorbing, arousing, electric, fascinating; *antonyms* (*adj*) boring, dull, bland, insipid,

- monotonous, uninteresting, unexciting, **3**. stimulation; *synonyms* (*n*) incentive, arousal, encouragement, excitement, goad, inspiration, provocation, stimulant, stimulus, motivation, foreplay, galvanism, input.
- 36УДЖУВАТИ 1. wake; synonyms (v) awaken, awake, rouse, stir, arouse, excite, provoke, vigil, waken, kindle, (n) train, trail, backwash, track, wave; antonym (v) sleep, 2. stimulate; synonyms (v) incite, encourage, enliven, inspire, prompt, animate, drive, energize, exhilarate, goad, hasten, instigate, invigorate, spur, (adj) quicken; antonym (v) defuse, 3. stir; synonyms (v) budge, move, affect, agitate, go, cause, foment, (n) movement, commotion, disturbance, excitement, agitation, fuss, riot, (adj) bustle, 4. tense; synonyms (adj) strained, edgy, nervous, taut, stiff, uptight, jumpy, wired, stretched, jittery, tight, (v) overwrought, strain, extend, tighten; antonyms (adj) relaxed, calm, comfortable, tranquil, loose, (v) relax.
- **збудливий** inflammatory; *synonyms* (*adj*) incendiary, provocative, seditious, incitive, phlogistic, insurgent, aggressive, incendious, incensive, inflammative, instigative, offensive, subversive, anarchic, explosive.
- 36ΥДУВАТИ construct; synonyms (v) make, build, compose, erect, fabricate, form, arrange, constitute, manufacture, produce, raise, rear, assemble, compile, (n) concept; antonyms (v) destroy, demolish.
- **36yт 1**. sale (продаж); *synonyms* (n) fair, disposal, demand, market, vend, vendition, outlet, carnival, contract, dealings, emission, escape, festival, fête, (adj) cheap, **2**. market; *synonyms* (n) shop, bazaar, marketplace, trade, mart, store, clientele, grocery, (v) sell, commercialize, exchange, handle, merchandise, sale, traffic, **3**. marketing; *synonyms* (n) commerce, merchandising, selling, distribution, advertising, campaign, nundination, promotion, publicity, staging, sunnlies.
- **3BAXATM** include; *synonyms* (*v*) hold, comprise, contain, embody, encompass, insert, comprehend, embrace, implicate, involve, number, add, admit, enclose, have; *antonym* (*v*) exclude.
- **3BAЖУВАТИ** scale; *synonyms* (n) flake, gamut, degree, graduation, measure, yardstick, rate, chip, (v) ascend, climb, gauge, mount, weigh, rise, (adj) balance; *antonym* (v) descend.
- 3BAЖУВАТИСЯ scale; synonyms (n) flake, gamut, degree, graduation, measure, yardstick, rate, chip, (v) ascend, climb, gauge, mount, weigh, rise, (adj) balance; antonym (v) descend.
- **ЗВАЛЮВАТИ** fell; *synonyms* (*v*) chop, cut, drop, floor, ax, level, down, demolish, (*adj*) barbarous, cruel, prostrate, brutal, fierce, savage, (*n*) skin.
- **3Bahhf 1**. title; *synonyms* (n) call, designation, caption, claim, designate, appellation, denomination, epithet, interest, (v) name, style, term, entitle, (adj) right, ownership, **2**. rank; *synonyms* (n) range, place, file, gradation, line, degree, quality, (v) arrange, order, class, classify, grade, position, array, group; *antonym* (adj) fresh, **3**. degree; *synonyms* (n) extent, condition, level, rank, title, caliber, status, amount, caste, height, measure, plane, point, rate, scale.

- **ЗВАТИ** call; *synonyms* (*v*) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (*n*) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; *antonym* (*v*) dismiss.
- **звернення 1.** appeal; *synonyms* (*n*) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (*v*) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; *antonyms* (*n*) unpleasantness, (*v*) repel, **2.** application; *synonyms* (*n*) appeal, appliance, concentration, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, use, attention, administration, call, claim, coating, employment, exertion, **3.** address; *synonyms* (*n*) accost, lecture, abode, discourse, residence, skill, speech, allocution, greeting, oration, sermon, talk, (*v*) greet, harangue, speak; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- **3BEPHYTUCЯ** address; *synonyms* (*n*) accost, lecture, abode, discourse, residence, skill, speech, allocution, greeting, oration, sermon, (*v*) greet, call, harangue, speak; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- **3BEPTAHHЯ** appeal; *synonyms* (*n*) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (*v*) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; *antonyms* (*n*) unpleasantness, (*v*) repel.
- **3Beptatics 1.** address; *synonyms* (*n*) accost, lecture, abode, discourse, residence, skill, speech, allocution, greeting, oration, sermon, (*v*) greet, call, harangue, speak; *antonym* (*v*) ignore, **2.** approach; *synonyms* (*n*) access, entry, advent, arrival, avenue, coming, entrance, means, method, adit, attitude, (*v*) advance, address, near, approximate; *antonym* (*v*) leave, **3.** appeal; *synonyms* (*n*) plea, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, magnetism, (*v*) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; *antonyms* (*n*) unpleasantness, (*v*) repel, **4.** refer; *synonyms* (*v*) allude, apply, pertain, submit, deliver, commend, advert, impute, name, relate, invoke, adduce, ascribe, attribute, consign.
- **ЗВИВИСТИЙ 1.** wandering; *synonyms* (v) unsettled, (adj) itinerant, nomadic, stray, erratic, rambling, vagrant, errant, vagabond, migratory, lost, roaming, (n) roving, peregrination, travel, **2.** twisted; *synonyms* (adj) crooked, deformed, perverted, bent, distorted, coiled, misshapen, contorted, curved, twined, winding, wry, gnarled, tortuous, awry; *antonyms* (adj) straight, tidy.
- **3BUHYBATY BATY** blame; *synonyms* (v) accuse, arraign, censure, reprimand, charge, reproach, chide, fault, rebuke, attribute, (n) attack, rap, onus, accusation, allegation; *antonyms* (v) pardon, absolve, praise.
- **ЗВИТЯГА** Victory (ΠΕΡΕΜΟΓΑ); *synonyms* (*n*) triumph, conquest, success, mastery, subjugation, superiority, achievement, expugnation, feat; *antonyms* (*n*) defeat, beating, failure, loss.
- **звичай 1**. habit; *synonyms* (*n*) custom, clothing, attire, character, convention, dress, garb, practice, ritual, use, addiction, clothes, disposition, apparel, constitution, **2**. custom; *synonyms* (*n*) tradition, habit, usage, fashion, impost, method, observance, order, rite, rule, tax, usance, (*v*) accustom, trade, (*adj*) bespoke, **3**. usage; *synonyms* (*n*) employment, consuetude, exercise, treatment, wont, system, routine, employ, management, manipulation, utilization, prescription, (*v*) application, manner, treat, **4**. convention; *synonyms* (*n*) conference, congress, meeting, contract, assembly, convocation,

- council, agreement, assemblage, bargain, gathering, compact, company, concord, bond, **5**. practice; *synonyms* (*n*) discipline, experience, form, performance, process, work, behavior, play, (*v*) drill, act, apply, rehearse, exert, do, practise, **6**. mode; *synonyms* (*n*) means, way, condition, guise, style, wise, appearance, approach, fad, modality, rage, type, vogue, kind, model.
- звичайний 1. ordinary; synonyms (adj) middling, average, familiar, mediocre, usual, commonplace. everyday, habitual, normal, mean, banal, (n) common, customary, accustomed, (v) general; antonyms (adj) extraordinary, unusual, incredible, outstanding, peculiar, strange, special, distinguished, famous, 2. usual; synonyms (adj) ordinary, conventional, routine, public, prevalent, natural, prevailing, stock, typical, traditional, accepted, (n) regular, (v) frequent, wonted, plebeian; antonyms (adj) unconventional, abnormal, 3. customary; synonyms (adj) current, orthodox, prescriptive, set, 4. normal; synonyms (adj) just, formal, medium, perpendicular, right, sane, true, legitimate, characteristic, innate, vertical, fair, mundane, (v) healthy, (n) practice; antonyms (adj) creepy, eccentric, irregular, odd, supernatural, weird, irrational, phenomenal, 5. average; synonyms (adj) median, middle, intermediate, mid, moderate, tolerable, medial, mesial, plain, passable, reasonable, (n) norm, midpoint; antonyms (adj) exceptional, (v) maximum, minimum, 6. conventional; synonyms (adj) conservative, decorous, established, ceremonious, classic, approved, hackneyed, stereotyped, correct, prim, reserved, (v) trite; antonyms (adj) radical, relaxed, original, rebellious, unorthodox, 7. everyday; synonyms (adj) casual, daily, humdrum, prosaic, informal, vulgar, colloquial, undistinguished, household, quotidian, workaday, uninspired, unremarkable; antonym (adj) exquisite, 8. common; synonyms (adj) coarse, cheap, mutual, base, ignoble, trivial, poor, collective, communal, humble, joint, low, lowly, mere, (n) commons; antonyms (adj) individual, uncommon, rare, one-off, specific, unique, aristocratic, exclusive, infrequent, 9. simple; synonyms (adj) homely, pure, elementary, innocent, rustic, honest, bare, chaste, childish, childlike, easy, foolish, ingenuous, (v) clear, downright; antonyms (adj) complex, complicated, compound, elaborate, difficult, multiple, obscure, ornate, confused, confusing, cunning, multifaceted, problematical, sophisticated.
- звичайно 1. certainly; synonyms (adv) assuredly, surely, necessarily, definitely, really, sure, truly, inevitably, absolutely, clearly, exactly, indeed, indubitably, positively, (int) yes; antonyms (adv) doubtfully, questionably, 2. usually; synonyms (adv) generally, commonly, mostly, normally, ordinarily, frequently, customarily, habitually, regularly, broadly, readily, unremarkably; antonyms (adv) unusually, rarely, exceptionally, 3. surely; synonyms (adv) undoubtedly, confidently, firmly, securely, unquestionably, (int) certainly, (adj) doubtless, 4. absolutely; synonyms (adv) utterly, categorically, completely, dead, decidedly, entirely, fully, just, precisely, purely, simply, thoroughly, totally, very, altogether; antonyms (adv) partially, partly, 5. commonly; synonyms (adv) usually,

- currently, often, cheaply; antonym (adv) uncommonly, 6. generally; synonyms (adv) chiefly, approximately, largely, mainly, principally, overall, typically, primarily; antonyms (adv) narrowly, specifically, 7. naturally; synonyms (adv) course, innately, obviously, spontaneously, unaffectedly, openly; antonyms (adv) unnaturally, artificially, 8. mostly; synonyms (adv) especially, roughly, predominantly.
- **звичка 1**. habit; *synonyms* (*n*) custom, clothing, attire, character, convention, dress, garb, practice, ritual, use, addiction, clothes, disposition, apparel, constitution, **2**. custom; *synonyms* (*n*) tradition, habit, usage, fashion, impost, method, observance, order, rite, rule, tax, usance, (*y*) accustom, trade, (*adj*) bespoke.
- 3ВИЧНИЙ 1. customary; synonyms (adj) common, accustomed, conventional, habitual, usual, commonplace, ordinary, traditional, average, everyday, familiar, normal, regular, routine, wonted; antonym (adj) unusual, 2. normal; synonyms (adj) customary, general, mean, natural, typical, just, formal, medium, perpendicular, right, sane, true, legitimate, (v) healthy, (n) practice; antonyms (adj) abnormal, creepy, eccentric, extraordinary, irregular, odd, strange, supernatural, unconventional, weird, irrational, phenomenal, 3. ordinary; synonyms (adj) middling, mediocre, banal, frequent, indifferent, inferior, dull, fair, household, humble, mundane, pedestrian, prosaic, trite, (v) inconspicuous; antonyms (adj) incredible, outstanding, peculiar, special, distinguished, famous.
- ЗВІДКИ where; synonyms (adv) there, here, wherever, whither, anywhere, wherein, anyplace, whereas, somewhere, (conj) but, while, (pron) everywhere, (n) point, spot, situation.
- звідси hence; synonyms (adv) accordingly, consequently, therefore, away, because, for, then, thus, so, thence, whence
- **звільнений** immune; *synonyms* (*adj*) exempt, free, impervious, resistant, sacred, secure, privileged, allowed, excused, favored, insubordinate, irresponsible, licensed, repellent, resistive.
- звільнення 1. dismissal; synonyms (n) discharge, conge, denial, dismission, expulsion, release, removal, deposition, acquittal, dissolution, exclusion, firing, liberation, refusal, rejection, 2. exemption; synonyms (n) dispensation, immunity, exception, franchise, freedom, impunity, liberty, privilege, unsusceptibility, license, (v) excuse, exempt; antonym (n) liability, 3. release: synonyms (n) issue, departure, ransom. exemption, disengagement, (v) free, liberate, pardon, absolve, acquit, deliver, dismiss, exonerate, clear, (adj) disengage; antonyms (n) imprisonment, abduction, custody, involvement, preservation, (v) capture, confine, imprison, arrest, catch, 4. immunity; synonyms (n) invulnerability, resistance, safety, security; antonym (n) vulnerability, 5. liberation; synonyms (n) emancipation, deliverance, dismissal, rescue, delivery, freeing, relief, salvation, enfranchisement, escape, emission, (v) acquittance.
- **ЗВІЛЬНИТИ 1**. can; *synonyms* (*v*) tin, dismiss, fire, might, pickle, pot, sack, (*n*) bathroom, behind, buttocks, container, lavatory, posterior, rump, jar; *antonym* (*v*)

- hire, **2**. free; *synonyms* (*adj*) loose, frank, liberal, (*v*) clear, exempt, liberate, discharge, excuse, extricate, relieve, disentangle, acquit, deliver, disengage, ease; *antonyms* (*adj*) bound, restricted, compelled, confined, imprisoned, repressive, secure, strict, stuck, tangled, attached, busy, (*v*) confine, block, cage.
- **звільняти 1**. free; synonyms (adj) loose, frank, liberal, (v) clear, exempt, liberate, discharge, excuse, extricate, relieve, disentangle, acquit, deliver, disengage, ease; antonyms (adj) bound, restricted, compelled, confined, imprisoned, repressive, secure, strict, stuck, tangled, attached, busy, (v) confine, block, cage, 2. dismiss; synonyms (v) cashier, cast, disband, discard, drop, bounce, can, cease, dispatch, banish, disallow, discount, displace, dissolve, eject; antonyms (v) hire, employ, 3. release: synonyms (n) issue, liberation, departure. ransom, exemption, disengagement, freedom, immunity, (v) free, pardon, absolve, dismiss, exonerate, allow, emancipate; antonyms (n) imprisonment, abduction, custody, involvement, preservation, (v) capture, imprison, arrest, catch, 4. loose; synonyms (adj) lax, dissolute, licentious, light, vague, detached, immoral, lewd, incoherent, equivocal, flaccid, (v) relax, release, detach, (n) limp; antonyms (adj) tight, close, compressed, dense, taut, compact, wedged, 5. rid; synonyms (v) disembarrass, oust.
- звір 1. beast (тварина); synonyms (n) animal, monster, swine, creature, fiend, savage, barbarian, (adj) brute, bear, 2. animal (тварина); synonyms (n) beast, organism, being, fauna, (adj) bodily, carnal, brutal, corporeal, physical, sensual, primitive, (adv) fleshly.
- 3BICTKA news; synonyms (n) advice, information, intelligence, message, tidings, story, communication, gossip, notice, report, bulletin, dispatch, rumor, word, (adj) new.
- 3Bit 1. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, regard, score, tale, description, explanation, history, narration, reason, recital, story, tab, (v) report, 2. report; synonyms (n) gossip, notice, name, fame, message, news, notification, record, intelligence, bulletin, (v) account, describe, communicate, recount, relate; antonym (n) fact, 3. record; synonyms (n) register, list, book, disk, document, deed, disc, (v) chronicle, file, enter, note, inscribe, mark, enrol, enroll.
- **3BITHICTЬ** accounting; *synonyms* (*adj*) clerical, office, secretarial, (*n*) bookkeeping, account, accountancy, chronicle, explanation, grounds, history, story.
- **3BITYBATU** report; *synonyms* (n) description, gossip, notice, name, fame, message, narration, narrative, news, notification, recital, record, (v) account, describe, communicate; *antonym* (n) fact.
- **3BOJIKAHHЯ** delay; *synonyms* (*n*) pause, arrest, deferment, wait, stay, deferral, extension, (*v*) defer, check, postpone, reserve, adjourn, break, detain, hesitate; *antonyms* (*n*) punctuality, decisiveness, (*v*) rush, advance.
- **зворотний** 1. reverse; *synonyms* (*adj*) opposite, converse, inverse, (*v*) annul, repeal, rescind, countermand, overturn, revoke, rear, nullify, cancel, invert, overrule, (*n*) contrary; *antonym* (*n*) front, 2. counter; *synonyms* (*n*) buffet, bench, reverse,

- counterpunch, desk, (v) reply, contradict, resist, answer, react, respond, retort, thwart, disprove, (adj) antagonistic, 3. backwards; synonyms (adv) back, backward, rearward, rearwards, about, arrear, caudad, contrarily, reflexively, (adv, adj) topsy-turvy, 4. opposite; synonyms (adj) adverse, contradictory, diametric, different, hostile, opposing, opposed, conflicting, diametrical, (adv) counter, (n) opponent, adversary, contradiction, antonym, (pron) other; antonym (adj) similar.
- **зворушливий 1**. pathetic; synonyms (adj) deplorable, miserable, touching, affecting, pitiful, sad, wretched, forlorn, lamentable, tragic, distressing, piteous, poor, woeful, grievous; antonym (adj) brave, 2. appealing; synonyms (adj) absorbing, adorable, charming, enchanting, engaging, fascinating, inviting, prepossessing, likable, magnetic, pretty, lovable, alluring, attractive, captivating; antonyms (adj) unappealing, repellent, disgusting, 3. touching; synonyms (adj) moving, poignant, pathetic, adjacent, adjoining, emotional, contiguous, near, impressive, expressive, heartbreaking, (prep) concerning, about, (n) touch, contact, 4. moving; synonyms (adj) active, exciting, mobile, inspiring, movable, imposing, running, stirring, tender, thrilling, (n) movement, transport, advance, transfer, (adv) floating; antonyms (adj) motionless, still, depressing, stationary, unemotional.
- **3BOPYIIIYBATU** affect; *synonyms* (v) touch, move, act, fake, feign, impress, pretend, strike, concern, dispose, dissemble, hit, influence, involve, lead.
- **3By**K sound; *synonyms* (*n*) echo, peal, (*v*) ring, chime, fast, (*adj*) reasonable, complete, healthy, fit, good, just, rational, right, sane, sensible; *antonyms* (*n*) silence, (*adj*) illogical, unsound, confused.
- **звуковий 1**. acoustic; *synonyms* (*adj*) acoustical, aural, phonic, hearing, sensory, (*v*) auditory, auricular, **2**. audio; *synonyms* (*n*) sound, television, channel, phone, (*adj*) acoustic.
- **ЗВУКОЗАПИС** record; *synonyms* (*n*) register, list, account, book, disk, document, history, deed, (*v*) chronicle, file, enter, note, report, score, inscribe.
- **ЗВУЧАТИ** 1. sound; *synonyms* (*n*) echo, peal, (*v*) ring, chime, fast, (*adj*) reasonable, complete, healthy, fit, good, just, rational, right, sane, sensible; *antonyms* (*n*) silence, (*adj*) illogical, unsound, confused, 2. blow (ДУТИ); *synonyms* (*n*) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (*v*) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (*adj*) gasp; *antonyms* (*v*) calm, save.
- **ЗВУЧНИЙ 1**. sounding; *synonyms* (*adj*) audible, looking, hollow, sonant, voiceful, intonated, soniferous, tonic, (*n*) investigation, depth, test, **2**. ringing; *synonyms* (*n*) buzz, peal, resonance, ring, sound, plangency, reverberance, (*adj*) resonant, reverberant, loud, resounding, echoing.
- зв'язаний 1. bound; synonyms (v) leap, border, bounce, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, (n) spring, jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, hop; antonym (adj) free, 2. connected; synonyms (v) related, (adj) associated, affiliated, allied, attached, linked, committed; antonyms (adj) unconnected, unrelated, separate, 3. coherent; synonyms (adj) logical, rational, consistent,

- lucid, tenacious, clear, orderly, comprehensible, connected, sound; *antonyms* (*adj*) incoherent, illogical, confused, disjointed, rambling.
- **3B'33ATH** link; *synonyms* (*n*) connection, join, joint, bond, concatenation, (*v*) combine, tie, connect, couple, associate, attach, bridge, fasten, relate, yoke; *antonym* (*v*) separate.
- **3B'ЯЗКІВЕЦЬ** operator; *synonyms* (*n*) driver, hustler, manipulator, agent, doer, speculator, actor, employee, clerk, businessperson, captain, financier, floozie, floozy, hooker.
- зв'язний 1. coherent; synonyms (adj) logical, rational, consistent, lucid, tenacious, clear, orderly, comprehensible, connected, sound; antonyms (adj) incoherent, illogical, confused, disjointed, rambling, 2. connected; synonyms (v) related, (adj) associated, affiliated, allied, attached, linked, committed; antonyms (adj) unconnected, unrelated, separate.
- **3Β' ЯЗОК 1**. link; synonyms (n) connection, join, joint, bond, concatenation, (v) combine, tie, connect, couple, associate, attach, bridge, fasten, relate, voke; antonym (v) separate, 2. connection; synonyms (n) communication, attachment, bearing, affiliation, alliance, association, conjunction, knot, link, combination, affinity, coherence, coupling, intercourse, acquaintance; antonym (n) disconnection, 3. communication; synonyms (n) announcement, commerce, communicating, contact, conversation, discourse, epistle, letter, message, news, notice, report, tidings, word, expression, 4. tie; synonyms (n) band, draw, lace, relationship, sleeper, strap, string, cord, deadlock, fastening, crosstie, (v) bind, leash, marry, tether: antonyms (v) disconnect, until, undo, 5, liaison: synonyms (n) amour, affair, intrigue, affaire, connexion. relation, romance, intimacy, involvement, 6. association; synonyms (n) assembly, company, fellowship, partnership, society, syndicate, congress, meeting, brotherhood, club, coalition, conference, gang, group, (v) assemblage, 7. contact; synonyms (n) touch, collision, impact, tangency, interaction, juxtaposition. access, contiguity, (v) call, meet, adjoin, communicate, reach, butt, abut, **8**. relationship; synonyms (n) ratio, consanguinity, correlation, friendship, kindred, kinship, kin, proportion, rapport, dependency, reference, relations, union, account, descent.
- **3B'ЯЗУВАННЯ** binding; *synonyms* (*adj*) necessary, obligatory, valid, mandatory, compulsory, effectual, requisite, (*n*) cover, band, dressing, bond, covering, wrapping, back, bandaging.
- 3B'A3yBATH 1. band; synonyms (n) cluster, party, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, (v) ring, combine, 2. link; synonyms (n) connection, join, joint, bond, concatenation, association, (v) tie, connect, couple, associate, attach, bridge, fasten, relate, yoke; antonym (v) separate, 3. tie; synonyms (n) band, draw, relationship, sleeper, string, cord, deadlock, fastening, attachment, crosstie, (v) link, bind, leash, marry, tether; antonyms (v) disconnect, untie, undo.
- **3ГАДАТИ 1.** mention; *synonyms* (*v*) cite, name, hint, observe, commend, adduce, advert, note, notice, (*n*)

- comment, allusion, citation, remark, call, reference, **2**. recall; synonyms (v) retrieve, countermand, recognize, recollect, remember, repeal, rescind, retract, reverse, revoke, cancel, (n) anamnesis, memory, return, annulment; antonym (v) forget, **3**. remember; synonyms (v) commemorate, recall, consider, record, remind, retain, think, review, ponder, mark, imagine, refresh, memorialize, mention, reminisce.
- 3ΓΑДΚΑ memory; synonyms (n) memento, recall, recollection, remembrance, reminiscence, commemoration, memorial, remembering, retention, retrospect, storage, store, recognition, retrospection, (ν) mind.
- **3**ГАДУВАННЯ mention; *synonyms* (*v*) cite, name, hint, observe, commend, adduce, advert, note, notice, (*n*) comment, allusion, citation, remark, call, reference.
- **3Fagybatu 1.** remember; *synonyms* (v) commemorate, recognize, recall, recollect, consider, record, remind, retain, think, review, ponder, mark, imagine, refresh, cite; *antonym* (v) forget, **2.** mention; *synonyms* (v) name, hint, observe, commend, adduce, advert, note, notice, (n) comment, allusion, citation, remark, call, reference, quotation, **3.** refer; *synonyms* (v) allude, apply, pertain, submit, deliver, impute, relate, invoke, ascribe, attribute, consign, appeal, concern, consult, denote, **4.** remind; *synonyms* (v) remember, prompt, jog, cue, (n) mind.
- 3\(\textbf{ACAHH\H}\) dying; \(synonyms\) (adj) vanishing, last, moribund, \((n)\) death, demise, decease; \(antonyms\) (adj) thriving, opening, well.
- **3FBAJITYBAHHЯ** rape; *synonyms* (*n*) assault, violation, colza, rapine, ravishment, (*v*) outrage, pillage, plunder, ravish, foray, despoil, destroy, dishonour, violate, (*adj*) abuse.
- **3FUHATU 1.** bend; *synonyms* (*n*) bow, arch, arc, elbow, twist, angle, curvature, (*v*) curve, turn, crouch, stoop, crook, curl, flex, deflect; *antonyms* (*v*) straighten, square, **2**. curve; *synonyms* (*n*) bend, kink, round, bender, loop, coil, contour, (*v*) hook, wind, distort, meander, inflect, circle, crimp, lean.
- **3ΓΗΗΑΤΗCЯ** CUIVE; *synonyms* (n) bend, crook, bow, arc, curvature, kink, round, bender, (ν) curl, turn, arch, hook, wind, distort, (*adj*) flex.
- згідно after; synonyms (prep) following, since, (adv) later, beyond, next, subsequently, then, when, afterward, afterwards, behind, (adj) back, posterior, rear, subsequent.
- 3ГЛАДЖУВАТИ smooth; synonyms (adj) easy, calm, level, oily, facile, flat, flowing, fluent, fluid, glossy, graceful, greasy, (v) quiet, facilitate, even; antonyms (adj) rough, uneven, abrasive, coarse, crumpled, flaking, harsh, jerky, lined, peeling, prickly, ridged, wrinkled, corrugated, (v) wrinkle.
- **3года 1.** agreement; *synonyms* (*n*) accord, acquiescence, concord, accordance, coincidence, contract, acceptance, appointment, arrangement, compliance, confirmation, conformity, correspondence, covenant, settlement; *antonyms* (*n*) disagreement, argument, conflict, discord, rejection, dispute, resistance, **2.** accord; *synonyms* (*n*) agreement, assent, consensus, harmony, consonance, (*v*) agree, consent, give, bestow, grant, harmonize, suit,

- adjust, comply, compromise; antonym (n) strife, 3. consensus; synonyms (n) unanimity, unity, equality, classlessness, egalitarianism, (adj) unanimous; antonym (n) inequality, 4. compliance; synonyms (n) approval, observance, complaisance, obedience, compliancy, deference, submission, flexibility, yielding, conformation, meekness, performance, submissiveness, abidance; antonyms (n) disobedience, stubbornness, nonconformity, 5. concert; synonyms (n) tune, recital, concordance, unison, (v) arrange, contrive, manage, 6. consent; synonyms (n) approbation, concurrence, sanction, leave, permission, promise, (v) approve, concur, accede, accept, acquiesce, admit, coincide, permit, (adj) allow; antonyms (n) opposition, refusal, (v) disagree, refuse, veto, 7. understanding; synonyms (n) intellect, mind, reason, appreciation, comprehension, apprehension, bargain, deal, judgment, sense, sympathy, grasp, insight, (v) intelligence, discernment; antonyms (n) ignorance, bewilderment, disbelief.
- **ЗГОДЖУВАТИСЯ** agree; *synonyms* (*v*) accord, admit, acknowledge, acquiesce, adjust, accede, bargain, concord, correspond, fit, harmonize, suit, compromise, align, (*n*) coincide; *antonyms* (*v*) disagree, oppose, differ, argue, object, refuse, refute.
- **ЗГОДИТИСЯ** agree; *synonyms* (v) accord, admit, acknowledge, acquiesce, adjust, accede, bargain, concord, correspond, fit, harmonize, suit, compromise, align, (n) coincide; *antonyms* (v) disagree, oppose, differ, argue, object, refuse, refute.
- 3ГОДНИЙ 1. content; synonyms (n) capacity, contentment, matter, meaning, subject, substance, contentedness, (adj) contented, happy, fulfilled, (v) appease, please, satisfy, suffice, delight; antonyms (adj) tormented, unhappy, discontented, dissatisfied, rebellious, (v) discontent, upset, 2. ready; synonyms (adj) fit, prompt, quick, nimble, apt, deft, disposed, finished, handy, (v) prepare, fix, willing, (n) available, dexterous, eager; antonyms (adj) unprepared, unwilling.
- **згодом 1.** afterwards; *synonyms* (adv) after, afterward, subsequently, later, next, (adj) following, **2.** subsequently; *synonyms* (adv) behind, afterwards, accordingly, **3.** after; *synonyms* (prep) since, (adv) beyond, then, when, (adj) back, posterior, rear, subsequent, **4.** thereafter; *synonyms* (adv) thenceforth, thence, absent, elsewhere.
- 3Γορτοκ roll; synonyms (n) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (ν) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow.
- **зграя** 1. flock; *synonyms* (*n*) bunch, crowd, cluster, band, bevy, congregation, covey, gang, herd, horde, pack, troop, (*v*) assemble, mass, (*adj*) swarm, **2**. pack; *synonyms* (*n*) bundle, mob, company, batch, backpack, box, package, knapsack, bag, (*v*) compress, heap, cram, fill, jam, load; *antonym* (*v*) unpack.
- згубний 1. fatal; synonyms (adj) calamitous, deadly, destructive, disastrous, lethal, pestilent, dangerous, deathly, fateful, mortal, grave, killing, malignant, noxious, pernicious; antonym (adj) nonfatal, 2. disastrous; synonyms (adj) dire, deplorable, bad, catastrophic, fatal, sad, sinister, terrible, unfortunate,

- unlucky, untoward, baneful, woeful, adverse, (v) ruinous; antonyms (adj) fortunate, successful.
- **3ΓΥΡΤΟΒΑΗΙCTЬ** rally; *synonyms* (n) assembly, meeting, convention, gathering, (ν) banter, gather, muster, congregate, convene, assemble, chaff, collect, converge, meet, mobilize; *antonym* (ν) demobilize.
- **3ГУЩЕННЯ** concentration; *synonyms* (n) absorption, concentrate, application, attention, engrossment, intensity, compactness, strength, thickness, aggregation, strengthening, condensation, convergence, denseness, density; *antonym* (n) distraction.
- 3, ABATHCS 1. Surrender; synonyms (n) resign, resignation, capitulation, release, (v) concede, relinquish, abandon, render, capitulate, deliver, submit, forsake, forfeit, leave, cede; antonyms (v) conquer, resist, appropriate, fight, persevere, subdue, win, 2. appear; synonyms (v) occur, rise, seem, sound, emerge, show, break, arise, arrive, begin, feel, happen, look, surface, (n) come; antonyms (v) disappear, vanish, 3. seem; synonyms (v) appear, expect, beseem, act, face, front.
- **ЗДАВЛЮВАННЯ** compression; *synonyms* (n) compaction, condensation, pressure, compressing, concentration, consolidation, contraction, squeezing, concretion
- здатний 1. capable; synonyms (adj) able, competent, adequate, adept, accomplished, fit, gifted, proficient, qualified, trained, clever, consummate, effective, experienced, (n) efficient; antonyms (adj) incompetent, incapable, inept, unable, 2. able; synonyms (adj) capable, dexterous, adroit, expert, ingenious, endowed, apt, cute, deft, good, handy, potent, powerful, professional, (n) talented; antonyms (adj) untrained, weak.
- 3. ATHICTB 1. capability; synonyms (n) capacity, ability, aptitude, capableness, competence, faculty, gift, potency, potential, power, qualification, talent, aptness, efficiency, endowment; antonyms (n) inability, failure, incapability, 2. ability; synonyms (n) hand, cleverness, dexterity, accomplishment, bent, capability, competency, expertise, flair, genius, knowledge, might, skill, intelligence, adroitness; antonym (n) injury.
- 3дача 1. change; synonyms (n) shift, alteration, barter, modification, variation, move, (v) exchange, alter, adapt, alternate, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn; antonyms (v) stay, leave, idle, maintain, 2. surrender; synonyms (n) resign, resignation, capitulation, release, fall, (v) concede, relinquish, abandon, render, capitulate, deliver, submit, forsake, forfeit, cede; antonyms (v) conquer, resist, appropriate, fight, persevere, subdue, win.
- здебільшого mostly; synonyms (adv) generally, largely, chiefly, ordinarily, mainly, primarily, principally, especially, roughly, predominantly, usually, overall; antonym (adv) rarely.
- **3ДЕРЖУВАТИ** retain; *synonyms* (v) keep, preserve, reserve, have, continue, hold, maintain, employ, engage, hire, own, detain, possess, defend, occupy.
- **здивований** surprised; *synonyms* (*adj*) astonished, amazed, astounded, dumbfounded, shocked, stunned, bewildered, startled, aghast, confused, curious, puzzled,

- questioning, quizzical, baffled; *antonym* (adj) indifferent.
- **здивування 1**. astonishment; *synonyms* (*n*) amazement, admiration, wonder, surprise, wonderment, confusion, consternation, awe, **2**. surprise; *synonyms* (*n*) fright, astonishment, surprisal, (*v*) astound, alarm, amaze, astonish, shock, startle, jolt, stun, catch, bewilder, confound, stagger, **3**. wonder; *synonyms* (*v*) admire, query, question, reflect, speculate, (*n*) marvel, prodigy, miracle, muse, phenomenon, appreciation, curiosity, portent, oddity, disbelief, **4**. amazement; *synonym* (*n*) stupor.
- **ЗДИВУВАТИ** surprise; *synonyms* (*n*) fright, amazement, astonishment, surprisal, wonder, admiration, (*v*) astound, alarm, amaze, astonish, shock, startle, jolt, stun, catch.
- **3дирати** strip; *synonyms* (n) band, slip, (v) deprive, despoil, divest, peel, plunder, rifle, denude, ransack, pillage, pluck, pare, sack, bare; *antonyms* (v) dress, decorate.
- здібний 1. capable; synonyms (adj) able, competent, adequate, adept, accomplished, fit, gifted, proficient, qualified, trained, clever, consummate, effective, experienced, (n) efficient; antonyms (adj) incompetent, incapable, inept, unable, 2. clever; synonyms (adj) adroit, capable, acute, apt, intelligent, smart, astute, cunning, expert, ingenious, quick, sharp, skillful, artful, (v) brilliant; antonyms (adj) stupid, clumsy, unintelligent, dim, dull, 3. apt; synonyms (adj) appropriate, apropos, apposite, good, convenient, dexterous, ready, deft, disposed, fitting, happy, just, liable, likely, opportune; antonym (adj) inappropriate, 4. able; synonyms (adj) endowed, cute, handy, potent, powerful, professional, skilled, strong, resourceful, (n) talented; antonyms (adj) untrained, weak.
- 3, AIBHICTB 1. ability; synonyms (n) hand, aptitude, capacity, cleverness, dexterity, faculty, power, talent, accomplishment, bent, capability, competency, expertise, flair, genius; antonyms (n) inability, injury, 2. faculty; synonyms (n) endowment, facility, staff, efficiency, aptness, competence, expertness, knack, potential, profession, (adj) ability, ingenuity, parts, talents, (v) gift, 3. capability; synonyms (n) capableness, potency, qualification, might, potentiality, proficiency, skill, susceptibility, adequacy; antonyms (n) failure, incapability.
- 3/IIIMATHCSI rise; synonyms (n) elevation, lift, ascent, progress, raise, swell, raising, advancement, (v) climb, mount, ascend, increase, heave, arise, jump; antonyms (n) reduction, (v) fall, decrease, drop, sink, descend, plummet, retire.
- **здійсненний 1**. feasible; *synonyms* (*adj*) practicable, possible, probable, fit, achievable, available, credible, doable, likely, practical, realizable, viable, attainable, executable, plausible; *antonym* (*adj*) impossible, **2**. practicable; *synonyms* (*adj*) feasible, operable, workable, handy, usable, useful, functional, performable.
- **здійснення** 1. fulfilment; *synonym* (*n*) fulfillment, 2. implementation; *synonyms* (*n*) execution, enforcement, accomplishment, effectuation,

- performance, exercise, executing, completion, doing, effect, acceptance, functioning, agreement, approval, assumption, **3**. performance; *synonyms* (n) act, discharge, achievement, observance, deed, exploit, implementation, operation, recital, work, fact, compliance, expression, (v) action, efficiency; *antonyms* (n) omission, practice, **4**. realization; *synonyms* (n) awareness, comprehension, actualization, fruition, realisation, grasp, actualisation, attainment, consummation, recognition, understanding, conception, consciousness, acknowledgment, end.
- ЗДІЙСНИМИЙ practicable; synonyms (adj) feasible, possible, operable, practical, achievable, doable, executable, viable, workable, attainable, likely, handy, realizable, usable, useful; antonym (adj) impossible.
- ЗДІЙСНИТИ realize; synonyms (v) fulfill, achieve, perform, discover, attain, accomplish, appreciate, complete, execute, know, make, recognize, sense, obtain, effect.
- здійснювати 1. realize; synonyms (v) fulfill, achieve, perform, discover, attain, accomplish, appreciate, complete, execute, know, make, recognize, sense, obtain, effect, 2. wage; synonyms (n) salary, pay, fee, payment, income, allowance, earnings, remuneration, stipend, (v) fight, engage, prosecute, pursue, hire, 3. exercise; synonyms (n) practice, employment, application, discipline, play, movement, action, activity, (v) drill, apply, employ, use, exert, train, educate, **4**. fulfil; synonyms (v) do, fill, satisfy, meet, 5. implement; synonyms (v) fulfil, enforce, discharge, realize, (n) tool, apparatus, utensil, appliance, device, instrument, gadget, organ, contrivance, machine, thing, 6. practise; synonyms (v) exercise, rehearse, act, answer, arrange, behave, bore, cause, coif, coiffe, coiffure, come, dress, fare, manage.
- 3Добич 1. prey; synonyms (n) chase, game, plunder, victim, quarry, raven, target, mark, capture, booty, (v) feed, eat, ravage, pasture; antonym (n) hunter, 2. bag; synonyms (n) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (v) bulge, catch, filch, hook, net, pilfer, 3. trophy; synonyms (n) award, prize, monument, hatchment, slab, tablet, 4. quarry; synonyms (n) mine, prey, dig, pit, butt, excavation, fund, lode, objective, (v) excavate.
- 3ДОБУВАТИ 1. acquire; synonyms (v) get, achieve, find, gain, take, accept, attain, buy, collect, contract, earn, obtain, purchase, receive, assume; antonyms (v) lose, sell, 2. gain; synonyms (v) acquire, benefit, derive, catch, win, advance, make, reach, accomplish, come, (n) profit, earnings, acquisition, advantage, addition; antonym (n) loss, 3. obtain; synonyms (v) have, effect, extract, gather, prevail, procure, extort, compass, fetch, carry, draw, enlist, hold, incur, reap.
- **3.JOBYTOK** achievement; *synonyms* (n) accomplishment, performance, completion, deed, execution, exploit, act, action, attainment, fulfillment, victory, effort, implementation, acquisition, (adj) feat; *antonym* (n) failure.
- 3ДОГАДКА guess; synonyms (v) conjecture, surmise, forecast, believe, deem, divine, reckon, suppose, assume, calculate, feel, figure, foretell, (n) estimate, assumption.

- 3ДОГАДУВАТИСЯ 1. guess; synonyms (v) conjecture, surmise, forecast, believe, deem, divine, reckon, suppose, assume, calculate, feel, figure, foretell, (n) estimate, assumption, 2. imagine; synonyms (v) think, conceive, daydream, fancy, guess, consider, devise, envision, fantasize, see, visualize, image, gather, apprehend, (n) dream, 3. understand; synonyms (v) interpret, recognize, catch, hear, learn, realize, appreciate, comprehend, construe, deduce, grasp, perceive, read, translate, (adj) take; antonyms (v) misinterpret, misconstrue, misunderstand.
- **Здоровий 1**. healthy; synonyms (adj) healthful, fit, good, hale, salubrious, wholesome, beneficial, hearty, sound, well, whole, sane, abundant, nutritious, active: antonyms (adj) unhealthy, harmful, unwell, unfit, dependent, fattening, infected, soporific, unwholesome, weak, 2. robust; synonyms (adj) healthy, firm, strong, athletic, brawny, muscular, powerful, vigorous, lusty, mighty, stout, sturdy, forcible, (n) hardy, hard; antonyms (adj) slight, fragile, frail, 3. well (добре); synonyms (adv) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, correctly, amply, (adj) shaft, robust, (n) fountain, spring, pit, hollow, fountainhead, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, dying, nauseous, 4. sound; synonyms (n) echo, peal, audio, (v) ring, chime, fast, blow, chirp, boom, (adj) reasonable, complete, just, rational, sensible, certain; antonyms (n) silence, (adj) illogical, unsound, confused.
- здоров'я health; *synonyms* (*n*) condition, fitness, welfare, pledge, strength, form, salubrity, shape, good, safety, security, bail, comfort, crankness, (*v*) cure.
- **ЗДРИГАТИСЯ** jump (стрибати); *synonyms* (*v*) hop, spring, dive, hurdle, rise, skip, startle, clear, dance, (*n*) leap, bound, bounce, start, caper, curvet; *antonyms* (*v*) decrease, fall.
- **здурілий** silly; *synonyms* (*adj*) foolish, absurd, ridiculous, childish, fatuous, fool, frivolous, idiotic, irrational, preposterous, unreasonable, crazy, daft, dizzy, (*n*) imbecile; *antonyms* (*adj*) sensible, mature, wise.
- зелений green; synonyms (adj) fresh, callow, immature, emerald, jealous, raw, young, youthful, crude, envious, grassy, gullible, inexperienced, juvenile, (n) lawn; antonym (adj) experienced.
- **ЗЕЛЕНУВАТО-ЖОВТИЙ** sulphur; *synonyms* (*n*) s, mho, quebrith, sec, second, siemens, south, (*v*) brimstone. sulfur.
- **ЗЕЛЕНЬ** green (зелений); *synonyms* (*adj*) fresh, callow, immature, emerald, jealous, raw, young, youthful, crude, envious, grassy, gullible, inexperienced, juvenile, (*n*) lawn; *antonym* (*adj*) experienced.
- **ЗЕМЕЛЬНИЙ 1**. territorial; *synonyms* (*adj*) local, landed, predial, colonial, **2**. landed; *synonym* (*adj*) manorial.
- **3EMJIEBJIACHUK** landlord; *synonyms* (n) host, proprietor, owner, slumlord, publican, army, freeholder, hotelier, hotelkeeper, saw, throng, vendor; *antonyms* (n) tenant, occupant.
- **3EMJIEMIP** surveyor; *synonyms* (n) inspector, assessor, visitor, engineer, husband, ranger, supercargo, auditor, traveler, voyager.

- **3eMJepo6ctBo 1.** agriculture; *synonyms* (*n*) farming, agribusiness, agronomy, husbandry, tillage, geoponics, agriculturism, culture, defense, education, interior, labor, plough, state, terraculture, **2.** farming; *synonyms* (*n*) agriculture, cultivation, land.
- **ЗЕМЛЕРОБСЬКИЙ** agricultural; *synonyms* (*adj*) agrarian, rural, farming, rustic, undeveloped, unindustrialized, floricultural, gardening, horticultural, ranch.
- **3EMJEYCTPIŬ** planning; *synonyms* (n) preparation, calculation, organization, programming, plan, readying, foresight, architecture, arrangements, building, consideration, construction, debate, deliberations, direction.
- **3емля 1.** earth; *synonyms* (n) dirt, world, dust, ground, land, clay, lair, creation, ball, country, den, globe, hole, nature, orb, **2.** soil; *synonyms* (n) grime, (v) smudge, blot, contaminate, dirty, pollute, mire, blemish, defile, foul, mould, smear, smirch, smutch, (adj) blur; *antonym* (v) clean, **3.** land; *synonyms* (n) soil, field, kingdom, domain, estate, nation, realm, state, empire, (v) disembark, debark, alight, get, drop, arrive; *antonym* (adj) aquatic, **4.** ground; *synonyms* (n) base, cause, floor, reason, account, basis, footing, foundation, argument, (v) bottom, found, establish, fix, rest, build; *antonym* (n) ceiling, **5.** territory (repuropia); *synonyms* (n) district, dominion, area, region, province, jurisdiction, expanse, possession, terrain, environment, habitat, sphere, community, section, space.
- **3EMJIAK** brother; *synonyms* (n) fellow, pal, associate, buddy, chum, companion, compeer, comrade, counterpart, crony, friend, mate, monk, peer, sidekick; *antonym* (n) sister.
- **Земний** terrain; *synonyms* (n) ground, field, land, country, area, grounds, region, territory, topography, scenery.
- **3EHIT 1.** noon; *synonyms* (n) midday, noonday, noontide, crest, lunchtime, (adj) meridian, culmination, meridional, **2.** summit; *synonyms* (n) acme, apex, peak, pinnacle, crown, height, point, top, climax, tip, vertex, zenith, prime, heyday, altitude; *antonyms* (n) base, nadir.
- **3epho 1.** grain; *synonyms* (n) corn, crumb, bit, berry, cereal, fragment, atom, character, grist, kernel, scrap, speck, buckwheat, cast, iota, **2.** corn; *synonyms* (n) maize, clavus, cereals, callus, wheat, grain, commonplace, (v) feed, keep.
- **зеро** zero (нуль); *synonyms* (*n*) nil, nothing, nobody, cipher, naught, cypher, nought, null, nihil, nullity, aught, nix, root, zilch, zip.
- **3'ЄДНАНИЙ** joint; *synonyms* (*adj*) collective, common, communal, cooperative, mutual, bilateral, (*n*) articulation, hinge, join, seam, connection, tie, joining, (*v*) articulate, associate; *antonyms* (*adj*) individual, unilateral, private, separate.
- 3'єднання 1. junction; synonyms (n) confluence, joint, connection, meeting, interchange, articulation, combination, join, conjunction, crossroads, union, bond, contact, linkage, crossing, 2. union; synonyms (n) coalition, junction, association, league, merger, alliance, coalescence, confederacy, coupling, fusion, marriage, matrimony, unification, amalgamation, brotherhood; antonyms (n) separation, divergence, 3. association;

- synonyms (n) affiliation, assembly, affinity, company, fellowship, link, partnership, society, syndicate, congress, band, club, communication, conference, (v) assemblage, 4. link; synonyms (n) concatenation, attachment, (v) combine, tie, connect, couple, associate, attach, bridge, fasten, relate, yoke, bind, fix, (adj) correlation; antonym (v) separate, 5. joining; synonyms (adj) connecting, adjunctive, (n) connexion, juncture.
- 3'сднувати 1. link; synonyms (n) connection, join, joint, bond, concatenation, (v) combine, tie, connect, couple, associate, attach, bridge, fasten, relate, yoke; antonym (v) separate, 2. compound; synonyms (n) blend, complex, mix, amalgam, combination, concoction, mixture, brew, composition, preparation, (v) alloy, amalgamate, compromise, (adj) composite, mixed; antonym (adj) simple, 3. couple; synonyms (n) brace, duo, dyad, twosome, couplet, deuce, (v) pair, copulate, link, match, mate, wed, annex, add, (adj) hook; antonym (v) uncouple, 4. join; synonyms (v) unite, graft, assemble, affiliate, meet, affix, conjoin, converge, enroll, integrate, interconnect, knit, splice, articulate, enter; antonyms (v) detach, secede, split, undo.
- 3'€ДНУВАТИСЯ mix; synonyms (n) mixture, concoction, (v) alloy, blend, intermingle, mingle, combine, compound, confound, intermix, join, meld, merge, aggregate, admix; antonym (v) separate.
- 33аду behind; synonyms (prep) after, abaft, (adv) backward, backwards, late, later, aback, beyond, (n) backside, bottom, buttocks, can, posterior, (adj) back, rear; antonyms (adv) ahead, early, fore.
- **3uma** winter; *synonyms* (n) wintertime, season, chill, frost, hiems, coldness, iciness, (v) hibernate.
- **3umyBatu** winter (3uMa); *synonyms* (n) wintertime, season, chill, frost, hiems, coldness, iciness, (v) hibernate.
- **3I** with; *synonyms* (*prep*) by, for, alongside, among, plus, (*adv*) on, beside, (*adj*) including, (*n*) withe.
- ЗІБРАНИЙ collected; synonyms (v) composed, (adj) calm, accumulated, amassed, assembled, cool, sober, tranquil, poised, unflappable, dispassionate, gathered, imperturbable, peaceful, placid; antonym (adj) agitated.
- 3IБРАННЯ 1. collection; synonyms (n) accumulation, assembly, assortment, bundle, gathering, set, bunch, cluster, compilation, heap, mass, pile, variety, batch, (v) assemblage, 2. assembly; synonyms (n) meeting, collection, congregation, convention, fabrication, multitude, assembling, body, chamber, company, conclave, concourse, congress, construction, convocation, 3. meeting (збори); synonyms (n) confluence, conference, council, appointment, caucus, encounter, junction, meet, forum, confrontation, assignation, consultation, discussion, interview, rendezvous; antonym (n) divergence.
- **313HAHHЯ** confession; *synonyms* (*n*) avowal, admission, acknowledgment, recognition, concession, divulgence, disclosure, penance, profession, apology; *antonym* (*n*) denial.
- ЗІПСОВАНИЙ naughty; synonyms (adj) bad, blue, impish, mischievous, improper, disobedient, insubordinate, wicked, evil, lewd, dark, defiant, racy, rebellious, risque; antonyms (adj) well-behaved, good.

- 3ip 1. sight; synonyms (n) vision, glimpse, prospect, scene, show, view, aspect, eye, eyesight, (v) aim, spot, see, appearance, descry, discern, 2. vision; synonyms (n) sight, dream, daydream, imagination, outlook, specter, ghost, spirit, apparition, fantasy, hallucination, image, phantom, illusion, (v) fancy; antonym (n) reality.
- 3ipκa star; synonyms (n) asterisk, celebrity, ace, principal, headliner, leading, luminary, personality, champion, idol, lead, world, bigwig, (adj) asteriated, (v) feature; antonym (n) nobody.
- 3ICTABJISTU confront; synonyms (v) face, front, oppose, challenge, approach, brave, defy, collate, affront, play, compare, dare, encounter, meet, resist; antonyms (v) avoid, evade.
- 31TKHEHHЯ 1. collision; synonyms (n) clash, clashing, conflict, crash, hit, smash, accident, rencounter, jar, hitting, striking, blow, concussion, contact, discord, 2. impact; synonyms (n) shock, collision, force, effect, impingement, impression, influence, touch, bang, consequence, jolt, push, upshot, (v) affect, ram.
- Зiтхати sigh; synonyms (n) suspire, breath, wail, suspiration, whimper, whine, sike, (v) moan, groan, breathe, languish, murmur, pine, whisper.
- 3'ï3A 1. conference; *synonyms* (n) assembly, colloquy, meeting, council, consultation, interview, negotiation, talk, congress, discussion, gathering, session, sitting, audience, conclave, 2. congress; *synonyms* (n) convention, convocation, conference, intercourse, congregation, confluence, association, synod, cockpit, coition, coitus, concourse, conflux, 3. convention; *synonyms* (n) contract, custom, tradition, agreement, assemblage, bargain, habit, practice, fashion, compact, company, concord, bond, conventionalism, conventionality, 4. rally; *synonyms* (v) banter, gather, muster, congregate, convene, assemble, chaff, collect, converge, meet, mobilize, recover, ridicule, tease, jeer; *antonym* (v) demobilize.
- 3.JAFOJA 1. harmony; synonyms (n) accord, conformity, consonance, agreement, concord, correspondence, accordance, congruity, consistency, amity, concordance, tune, understanding, (v) concert, peace; antonyms (n) dissonance, discord, argument, conflict, disagreement, 2. unity; synonyms (n) union, harmony, oneness, unison, completeness, integrity, identity, one, single, consensus, entirety, communion, ace, coherence, compatibility; antonym (n) separation, 3. tune; synonyms (n) melody, song, strain, air, note, music, sound, tone, line, (v) adjust, regulate, chant, attune, string, service.
- 3.JAMATU break; synonyms (v) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (n) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; antonyms (v) repair, obey, honor, mend, (n) continuation.
- 3.TE ill; synonyms (adj) bad, sick, ailing, diseased, unhealthy, adverse, (adv) badly, poorly, sickly, (n) evil, harm, complaint, hurt, ailment, mischief; antonyms (adj) healthy, (adv) well.
- **злегка 1**. slightly, *synonyms* (*adv*) rather, little, somewhat, lightly, slight, fairly, moderately, slenderly, faintly, small, hardly, barely, slimly, scarcely; *antonyms*

- (adv) very, excessively, infinitely, significantly, terribly, tremendously, considerably, much, particularly, solidly, **2**. lightly; **synonyms** (adv) gently, light, airily, softly, flippantly, easily, quietly, readily, slightly, delicately, thinly; **antonyms** (adv) heavily, seriously, thickly.
- **злива 1**. shower; *synonyms* (*n*) rain, drizzle, barrage, rainfall, torrent, volley, (*v*) pour, bathe, hail, sprinkle, wash, shed, bath, scatter, spray, **2**. pour; *synonyms* (*v*) gush, decant, flow, pelt, stream, discharge, emit, jet, run, spill, teem, effuse, deluge, (*n*) overflow, flood.
- **ЗЛИВОК** cake; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, block, pastry, lump, pie, (*v*) harden, set, (*adj*) clot, fix.
- **3.Лидні 1.** misery; *synonyms* (*n*) adversity, distress, affliction, agony, anguish, woe, hardship, evil, ill, infelicity, poverty, suffering, calamity, depression, (*adj*) grief; *antonyms* (*n*) cheerfulness, ecstasy, happiness, joy, fun, hopefulness, **2**. need; *synonyms* (*v*) lack, claim, require, destitution, indigence, involve, (*n*) demand, want, desire, deficiency, must, necessity, deprivation, requirement, absence; *antonym* (*n*) wealth.
- **ЗЛИЙ 1**. wicked; synonyms (adj) atrocious, bad, evil, sinful, vicious, depraved, immoral, mischievous, unholy, vile, corrupt, criminal, diabolical, foul, hellish; antonyms (adj) good, innocent, kind, moral, pious, pure, 2. evil; synonyms (adj) ill, wicked, destructive, harmful, malign, sinister, (n) damage, adversity, detriment, disaster, depravity, malice, mischief, wickedness, (v) curse; antonyms (adj) kindhearted, (n) goodness, righteousness, 3. bad (поганий); synonyms (adj) adverse, naughty, poisonous, sad, malicious, infamous, appalling, awful, damaging, devilish, disagreeable, dreadful, hurtful, nasty, (v) decayed; antonyms (adj) fresh, pleasant, well, well-behaved, 4. vicious; synonyms (adj) brutal, cruel, malevolent, venomous, barbarous, savage, spiteful, profligate, fierce, ferocious, reprobate, heinous, dissolute, mean, bitter; antonyms (adj) gentle, friendly, 5. ill; synonyms (adj) sick, ailing, diseased, unhealthy, nauseous, disordered, (adv) badly, poorly, sickly, amiss, (n) harm, complaint, hurt, ailment, calamity; antonym (adj) healthy, 6. sinister; synonyms (adj) dark, ominous, baleful, black, forbidding, menacing, threatening, grim, inauspicious, minacious, minatory, ugly, fateful, obscure, disastrous.
- **ЗЛИТТЯ** merger; *synonyms* (n) amalgamation, combination, fusion, unification, coalition, consolidation, integration, annexation, alliance, association, union, uniting, mixture.
- 3.JITATII rocket; synonyms (n) missile, bomb, bullet, projectile, arugula, brickbat, carcass, grenade, (v) soar, rise, skyrocket, zoom; antonyms (v) plummet, dawdle.
- 3.no 1. evil; synonyms (adj) bad, corrupt, criminal, ill, wicked, depraved, destructive, harmful, malign, (n) damage, adversity, detriment, disaster, depravity, malice; antonyms (adj) kindhearted, (n) good, goodness, righteousness, 2. Wrong; synonyms (adj) harm, evil, false, improper, inappropriate, incorrect, abuse, inaccurate, iniquitous, (v) erroneous, (n) injure, injury, injustice, crime, hurt; antonyms (adj) correct, proper, honest, law-abiding, (adv) correctly, (v) right, (n) justice, 3. ill; synonyms (adj) sick, ailing, diseased, unhealthy, adverse, nauseous, disordered, (adv) badly, poorly,

- sickly, amiss, (n) complaint, ailment, mischief, calamity; antonyms (adj) healthy, (adv) well.
- 3.ЛОБНИЙ nasty; synonyms (adj) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, awful, mean, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, distasteful, evil, hurtful, obnoxious, raw; antonyms (adj) agreeable, kind, pleasant, nice, charitable, lovely.
- **зловживання** abuse; *synonyms* (n) affront, misuse, harm, outrage, reproach, invective, (v) insult, mistreat, injure, assault, censure, damage, exploit, hurt, (adj) maltreat; *antonyms* (v) praise, respect.
- **зловживати 1**. abuse; *synonyms* (*n*) affront, misuse, harm, outrage, reproach, invective, (*v*) insult, mistreat, injure, assault, censure, damage, exploit, hurt, (*adj*) maltreat; *antonyms* (*v*) praise, respect, **2**. strain; *synonyms* (*n*) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (*v*) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; *antonym* (*v*) relax.
- ЗЛОВІСНИЙ 1. grim; synonyms (adj) dreadful, austere, cheerless, dark, dour, dreary, forbidding, ghastly, glum, dire, hard, awful, bleak, depressing, dismal; antonyms (adj) cheerful, bright, 2. disastrous; synonyms (adj) calamitous, destructive, fateful, deplorable, bad, catastrophic, fatal, sad, sinister, terrible, unfortunate, unlucky, untoward, baneful, (v) ruinous; antonyms (adj) fortunate, successful, 3. sinister; synonyms (adj) ominous, baleful, black, menacing, threatening, malevolent, malign, grim, ill, inauspicious, minacious, minatory, ugly, malicious, obscure.
- **злодій** thief; *synonyms* (n) robber, burglar, bandit, pirate, plunderer, crook, filcher, stealer, despoiler, freebooter, pillager, rifler.
- **ЗЛОДІЙКУВАТИЙ** picking; *synonyms* (*adj*) careful, nice, (*n*) pick, option, selection, alternative, choice, burling, cream, filling, pickax, pickaxe, preference, pilfering, plectron.
- 3.IOŢIŬCTBO theft; synonyms (n) robbery, larceny, stealing, burglary, thievery, embezzlement, thieving, depredation, latrociny, stealth.
- **3.104HH 1.** crime; *synonyms* (*n*) offense, blame, guilt, injustice, transgression, villainy, evil, delinquency, fault, iniquity, misdemeanor, sin, vice, wickedness, wrong, **2**. offence; *synonyms* (*n*) infraction, infringement, misdemeanour, assault, offensive, umbrage, violation, discourtesy.
- **злочинець** criminal; *synonyms* (*adj*) guilty, illegal, sinful, wicked, condemnable, (*n*) convict, crook, culprit, hoodlum, malefactor, delinquent, felon, gangster, lawbreaker, (*v*) wrong; *antonyms* (*adj*) law-abiding, legal.
- злочинний 1. criminal; synonyms (adj) guilty, illegal, sinful, wicked, condemnable, (n) convict, crook, culprit, hoodlum, malefactor, delinquent, felon, gangster, lawbreaker, (v) wrong; antonyms (adj) law-abiding, legal, 2. guilty; synonyms (adj) ashamed, culpable, criminal, faulty, hangdog, chargeable, condemned, reprehensible, contrite, responsible, shamefaced, sheepish; antonyms (adj) innocent, blameless.
- **зляканий** afraid; *synonyms* (*adj*) fearful, timid, shy, anxious, apprehensive, frightened, nervous, scared,

- worried, horrified, terrified, uneasy, reluctant, (adv) cowardly; **antonyms** (adj) fearless, brave.
- 3MAΓAHHЯ 1. competition; synonyms (n) contest, rivalry, bout, competitior, contention, game, match, race, rival, combat, battle, conflict, contender, emulation, event; antonym (n) cooperation, 2. contest; synonyms (n) competition, fight, altercation, struggle, debate, feud, action, (v) compete, contend, dispute, argue, challenge, war, clash, controvert, 3. match; synonyms (n) equal, couple, duplicate, (v) agree, mate, meet, parallel, accord, correspond, harmonise, harmonize, balance, fellow, fit, pair; antonym (v) contradict.
- 3MAFATHCS 1. contest; synonyms (n) bout, competition, conflict, fight, altercation, contention, race, struggle, (v) battle, compete, combat, contend, dispute, argue, challenge, 2. compete; synonyms (v) emulate, rival, strive, participate, oppose, contest, vie, play, run.
- **3MAJIbOBYBATU** describe; synonyms (v) define, delineate, depict, outline, report, represent, state, draw, relate, qualify, characterize, designate, explain, name, narrate
- **ЗМЕНШЕНИЙ** reduced; *synonyms* (*adj*) decreased, abridged, curtailed, miniature, cheap, limited, bated, cut, inexpensive, low, lower, prostrate; *antonyms* (*adj*) expensive, complete.
- **3MEHIIEHHЯ 1**. decline; synonyms (n) decay, declension, decrease, dip, declination, (v) wane, drop, reject, fall, abate, ebb, fail, refuse, sink, deny; antonyms (n) improvement, recovery, development, growth, rebirth, (v) increase, rise, accept, flourish, improve, 2. depression; synonyms (n) basin, cavity, dejection, decline, dent, hole, hollow, impression, slump, trench, trough, recess, collapse, concavity, despair; antonyms (n) cheerfulness, happiness, boom, elation. encouragement, inflation, outcrop, 3. cutting; synonyms (adj) sharp, biting, keen, acute, bitter, caustic, acrimonious, acid, acrid, incisive, raw, sarcastic, satirical, (n) cut, clipping; antonyms (adj) blunt, mild, (n) extension, freedom, 4. decrease; synonyms (n) cutback, diminution, reduction, abatement, contraction, (v) lessen, abridge, diminish, curtail, lower, contract, detract, shrink, allay, debase; antonyms (v) grow, intensify.
- 3MEHIIIVBATU 1. decrease; synonyms (n) decline, cut, cutback, diminution, (v) abate, lessen, abridge, diminish, fall, curtail, lower, wane, contract, decay, detract; antonyms (n) growth, extension, (v) increase, rise, grow, intensify, 2. relax; synonyms (v) loose, give, lounge, unbend, melt, debilitate, ease, relieve, remit, rest, slack, soften, (n) loosen, release, (adj) relent; antonyms (v) tighten, tense, 3. reduce; synonyms (v) pare, abbreviate, debase, condense, shorten, concentrate, compress, conquer, decrease, dilute, deflate, enfeeble, abase, overcome, (adj) degrade; antonyms (v) bolster, expand, enlarge, exacerbate.
- **3MEHIMY BATHER 1.** decrease; *synonyms* (n) decline, cut, cutback, diminution, (v) abate, lessen, abridge, diminish, fall, curtail, lower, wane, contract, decay, detract; *antonyms* (n) growth, extension, (v) increase, rise, grow, intensify, **2.** decline; *synonyms* (n) declension, decrease, dip, declination, descent, deterioration, (v) drop, reject, ebb, fail, refuse, sink, deny, deteriorate, (adj)

- fade; *antonyms* (n) improvement, recovery, development, rebirth, (v) accept, flourish, improve.
- **3MiHa 1**. variance; *synonyms* (n) difference, disagreement, discrepancy, dissension, division, deviation, discord, divergence, misunderstanding, diversity, dissimilarity, dissonance, conflict, dispute, variability, 2. change; synonyms (n) shift, alteration, barter, modification, variation, move, (v) exchange, alter, adapt, alternate, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn; antonyms (v) stay, leave, idle, maintain, 3. variation; synonyms (n) change, mutation, variance, departure, fluctuation, permutation, contrast, distinction, innovation, variant, version, vicissitude, disparity, amendment, digression; antonym (n) similarity, 4. alteration; synonyms (n) adaptation, adjustment, revision, changeover, conversion, metamorphosis, transformation, movement, commutation, upheaval, correction, evolution, accommodation, 5. transformation; synonyms (n) metabolism, translation, transmutation, improvement, rectification, transmogrification, **6**. shift; synonyms (n) interchange, spell, device, resource, expedient, evasion, (v) remove, quibble, budge, displace, transfer, fluctuate, reposition, shuffle, slip.
- **3MIHUTU** change; *synonyms* (*n*) shift, alteration, barter, modification, variation, move, (*v*) exchange, alter, adapt, alternate, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn; *antonyms* (*v*) stay, leave, idle, maintain.
- **3Mihha** variable; *synonyms* (*adj*) unstable, changeable, fickle, inconstant, capricious, erratic, fitful, mutable, uncertain, unsettled, unsteady, fluctuating, inconsistent, shifting, variant; *antonyms* (*adj*) constant, fixed, invariable, regular, set, smooth.
- **змінний** variable; *synonyms* (*adj*) unstable, changeable, fickle, inconstant, capricious, erratic, fitful, mutable, uncertain, unsettled, unsteady, fluctuating, inconsistent, shifting, variant; *antonyms* (*adj*) constant, fixed, invariable, regular, set, smooth.
- 3Mihiobath 1. change; synonyms (n) shift, alteration, barter, modification, variation, move, (v) exchange, alter, adapt, alternate, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn; antonyms (v) stay, leave, idle, maintain, 2. transform; synonyms (v) change, metamorphose, modify, translate, become, transfigure, transmute, process, vary, reform, transmogrify, affect, interpret, mold, shape, 3. modify; synonyms (v) qualify, limit, adjust, amend, assuage, moderate, restrict, commute, fit, revise, soften, temper, mitigate, condition, differentiate, 4. alter; synonyms (v) castrate, correct, transform, distort, diversify, edit, emasculate, fluctuate, invert, neuter, reverse, twist, deform, make, emend.
- 3MIHOBATHCS 1. vary; synonyms (v) alter, change, differ, modify, alternate, deviate, diverge, diversify, modulate, depart, disagree, fluctuate, shift, variegate, contrast, 2. change; synonyms (n) alteration, barter, modification, variation, move, (v) exchange, adapt, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn, twist, affect, adjust; antonyms (v) stay, leave, idle, maintain, 3. alter; synonyms (v) amend, castrate, correct, transform, vary, distort, edit, emasculate, invert, neuter, reverse, revise, translate, deform, make.

- **3MIHATH** spell; *synonyms* (n) magic, fascination, bout, conjuration, incantation, period, sorcery, enchantment, turn, span, bewitchment, space, captivation, attack, (v) charm
- **3MIHATUCA** alter; *synonyms* (v) adapt, change, move, adjust, affect, amend, castrate, convert, correct, shift, transform, turn, vary, alternate, distort; *antonym* (v) maintain
- 3Mict 1. contents; synonyms (n) substance, matter, inside, list, synopsis, volume, cargo, conspectus, 2. content; synonyms (n) capacity, contentment, meaning, subject, contentedness, happiness, (adj) contented, happy, fulfilled, (v) appease, please, satisfy, suffice, delight, gratify; antonyms (adj) tormented, unhappy, discontented, dissatisfied, rebellious, (v) discontent, upset, 3. matter; synonyms (n) event, affair, business, concern, issue, material, incident, article, body, import, interest, item, topic, (v) case, count, 4. meat; synonyms (n) flesh, core, essence, food, gist, heart, kernel, marrow, crux, beef, brawn, stuff, content, inwardness, nub.
- **3MICTOBHICT5** pregnancy; *synonyms* (n) gravidity, gestation, fertility, behavior, childbearing, departure, doings, fetation, going, pregnance, uterogestation, traveling, (*adj*) procreation, propagation, pullulation.
- **ЗМІЦНЕННЯ** consolidation; *synonyms* (*n*) amalgamation, unification, combination, fortification, union, condensation, joinder, coalition, integration.
- 3MILHOBATU 1. strengthen; synonyms (v) consolidate, confirm, corroborate, brace, encourage, enhance, fortify, intensify, invigorate, bolster, buttress, harden, increase, stiffen, toughen; antonyms (v) weaken, undermine, 2. steady; synonyms (adj) firm, even, secure, constant, continual, fixed, resolute, stable, cool, incessant, sedate, settled, (v) steadfast, calm, regular; antonyms (adj) unsteady, shaky, wobbly, intermittent, unreliable.
- 3МІШАНИЙ mixed; synonyms (adj) miscellaneous, assorted, composite, heterogeneous, integrated, medley, impure, amalgamated, diverse, intermingled, motley, varied, indiscriminate, (v) blended, mingled; antonyms (adj) homogeneous. insular, pure.
- **3MimyBahhf 1**. mix; *synonyms* (n) mixture, concoction, (v) alloy, blend, intermingle, mingle, combine, compound, confound, intermix, join, meld, merge, aggregate, admix; *antonym* (v) separate, **2**. mixture; *synonyms* (n) mix, assortment, hodgepodge, jumble, medley, miscellany, admixture, combination, commixture, compost, melange, amalgam, brew, fusion, intermixture
- **3MillyBath 1.** mix; *synonyms* (n) mixture, concoction, (v) alloy, blend, intermingle, mingle, combine, compound, confound, intermix, join, meld, merge, aggregate, admix; *antonym* (v) separate, **2.** compound; *synonyms* (n) complex, mix, amalgam, combination, brew, composition, preparation, compost, (v) amalgamate, compromise, augment, commingle, coalesce, (adj) composite, mixed; *antonym* (adj) simple.
- **3MIIILEHHЯ** bias; *synonyms* (*n*) penchant, drift, influence, turn, twist, favor, slope, angle, bigotry, (*v*) prejudice, bent, slant, dispose, (*adj*) partiality, diagonal; *antonyms* (*n*) impartiality, neutrality, fairness.

- **3Mis** snake; *synonyms* (n) ophidian, serpent, hydra, (v) meander, wind, twist, coil, creep, curl, sneak, weave.
- **3MOBA 1.** conspiracy; *synonyms* (*n*) cabal, confederacy, intrigue, plot, combination, complot, collusion, coalition, design, plan, scheme, **2**. plot; *synonyms* (*n*) conspiracy, lot, chart, graph, patch, action, device, diagram, (*v*) plat, conspire, contrive, concoct, engineer, devise, machinate.
- **3MOFTH** able; *synonyms* (*adj*) capable, clever, competent, dexterous, accomplished, adroit, consummate, effective, expert, fit, gifted, ingenious, endowed, (*n*) efficient, talented; *antonyms* (*adj*) incapable, incompetent, inept, unable, untrained, weak.
- ЗМОРЕНИЙ exhausted; synonyms (v) weak, (adj) drained, fatigued, spent, tired, gone, dry, beat, depleted, empty, enervated, faint, jaded, weary, expended; antonyms (adj) energetic, fresh, refreshed, strong.
- **3MOYYBATU** damp; *synonyms* (*adj*) moist, muggy, clammy, cool, dank, humid, (*v*) break, check, chill, deaden, benumb, (*n*) wet, dampness, moisture, clamminess; *antonyms* (*adj*) dry, (*n*) dryness.
- ЗМУЖНІЛИЙ ripe; synonyms (adj) mature, adult, ready, advanced, good, prepared, perfect, matured, consummate, right, (v) mellow; antonym (adj) green.
- ЗМУЧЕНИЙ exhausted; synonyms (v) weak, (adj) drained, fatigued, spent, tired, gone, dry, beat, depleted, empty, enervated, faint, jaded, weary, expended; antonyms (adj) energetic, fresh, refreshed, strong.
- 3МУШЕНИЙ bound; synonyms (v) leap, border, bounce, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, (n) spring, jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, hop; antonym (adi) free.
- **ЗНаВець** expert; *synonyms* (*adj*) adept, adroit, dexterous, skillful, able, clever, experienced, accomplished, ace, apt, (*n*) professional, proficient, critic, authority, connoisseur; *antonyms* (*adj*) unskilled, inept, inferior, untrained, (*n*) amateur, beginner.
- 3HAЙOMA acquaintance; synonyms (n) connection, familiarity, friend, acquaintanceship, mate, associate, awareness, buddy, companion, comrade, contact, conversance, conversancy, experience, (v) knowledge; antonyms (n) ignorance, stranger.
- **знайомий** acquaintance; *synonyms* (*n*) connection, familiarity, friend, acquaintanceship, mate, associate, awareness, buddy, companion, comrade, contact, conversance, conversancy, experience, (*v*) knowledge; *antonyms* (*n*) ignorance, stranger.
- **3HAMOMUTU** introduce; *synonyms* (*v*) insert, interject, inject, acquaint, advance, enter, exhibit, implant, inaugurate, infuse, initiate, precede, present, instill, interpose; *antonym* (*v*) end.
- **3Haйoмство** 1. acquaintance; *synonyms* (*n*) connection, familiarity, friend, acquaintanceship, mate, associate, awareness, buddy, companion, comrade, contact, conversance, conversancy, experience, (*v*) knowledge; *antonyms* (*n*) ignorance, stranger, 2. knowledge; *synonyms* (*n*) information, comprehension, acquaintance, erudition, grasp, intelligence, lore, science, understanding, enlightenment, attainment, appreciation, (*v*) cognition, (*adj*) art, wisdom, 3. introduction; *synonyms* (*n*) induction, beginning, foreword, insertion,

- preface, presentation, entrance, initiation, preamble, preliminary, prelude, admission, entry, intro, opening; *antonyms* (*n*) finale, export, postscript.
- **3HAŬTU** find; *synonyms* (v) catch, discover, detect, encounter, acquire, ascertain, attain, feel, procure, gather, (n) detection, disclosure, discovery, search, breakthrough; *antonyms* (v) lose, misplace.
- 3Hak 1. Sign; synonyms (n) signal, indication, mark, motion, portent, brand, emblem, imprint, manifestation, omen, poster, presage, wave, (v) gesture, indicate, 2. mark; synonyms (n) evidence, score, character, heed, impression, sign, feature, badge, check, (v) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (adj) notice, 3. office; synonyms (n) charge, agency, duty, function, position, commission, appointment, division, authority, berth, bureau, job, part, place, post.
- знаменитий 1. famous; synonyms (adj) celebrated, eminent, splendid, distinguished, famed, illustrious, renowned, capital, conspicuous, important, known, notable, notorious, prominent, stunning; antonyms (adj) unknown, infamous, ordinary, 2. glorious; synonyms (adj) famous, bright, brilliant, great, magnificent, super, proud, resplendent, superb, lofty, cool, regal, dignified, divine, gorgeous, 3. outstanding; synonyms (adj) due, owing, excellent, exceptional, noteworthy, unpaid, major, extraordinary, noticeable, obvious, overdue, remarkable, salient, striking, superlative; antonyms (adj) paid, inferior.
- 3НАМЕННИЙ significant; synonyms (adj) important, material, momentous, grave, meaningful, serious, critical, emphatic, expressive, indicative, major, pregnant, relevant, (v) considerable, influential; antonyms (adj) insignificant, minor, unimportant, small, trivial
- **3HAMEHO** flag (πραπορ); *synonyms* (n) banner, colors, ensign, sign, fall, iris, (v) decline, languish, sag, abate, signal, (adi) droop, fade, drop, fail.
- **знання** 1. knowledge; *synonyms* (n) information, comprehension, acquaintance, erudition, grasp, intelligence, lore, science, understanding, enlightenment, attainment, appreciation, (v) cognition, (adj) art, wisdom; antonym (n) ignorance, 2. knowing; synonyms (v) canny, wise, (adj) astute, aware, conscious, crafty, bright, conversant, ingenious, intelligent, smart, erudite, experienced, (n) clever, cunning.
- **знаряддя 1**. implement; *synonyms* (*v*) execute, fulfil, accomplish, apply, enforce, fulfill, complete, (*n*) tool, apparatus, utensil, appliance, device, instrument, gadget, organ, **2**. instrument; *synonyms* (*n*) channel, deed, agency, document, expedient, pawn, gear, agent, engine, means, medium, creature, contrivance, intermediary, (*v*) implement, **3**. engine; *synonyms* (*n*) locomotive, machine, mechanism, **4**. tool; *synonyms* (*n*) puppet, cock, animal, marionette, pecker, prick, shaft, (*v*) drive, joyride.
- 3HATH know; synonyms (v) discern, comprehend, can, distinguish, have, recognize, understand, feel, acknowledge, agnise, agnize, apprehend, fathom, appreciate, (n) ken.
- **ЗНАТНИЙ** noble; *synonyms* (*adj*) dignified, imposing, magnificent, glorious, distinguished, elevated, exalted,

- generous, high, impressive, majestic, patrician, (n) grand, excellent, (v) great; **antonyms** (adj) lower-class, selfish, shameful, humble, dishonorable, lowly.
- **3HATHICTb** distinction; *synonyms* (*n*) contrast, difference, discrimination, eminence, rank, dissimilarity, demarcation, celebrity, prestige, reputation, consequence, differentiation, discrepancy, disparity, excellence; *antonym* (*n*) similarity.
- **ЗНАТЬ** nobility; *synonyms* (n) aristocracy, greatness, dignity, magnanimousness, noblesse, gentry, magnificence, goodness, rank, birth, elite, gallantry, (adj) grandeur, generosity, magnanimity; *antonym* (n) pettiness.
- Знахідка 1. finding; synonyms (n) decision, detection, determination, discovery, judgment, ruling, verdict, breakthrough, resolution, conclusion, find, analysis, 2. find; synonyms (v) catch, discover, detect, encounter, acquire, ascertain, attain, feel, procure, gather, acknowledge, chance, decide, (n) disclosure, search; antonyms (v) lose, misplace.
- **ЗНАХОДИТИ** find; *synonyms* (*v*) catch, discover, detect, encounter, acquire, ascertain, attain, feel, procure, gather, (*n*) detection, disclosure, discovery, search, breakthrough; *antonyms* (*v*) lose, misplace.
- **знаходитися** stand; *synonyms* (*v*) endure, stall, undergo, live, suffer, tolerate, prop, erect, hold, (*n*) attitude, booth, rack, base, pedestal, position; *antonyms* (*v*) sit, lie.
- значення 1. significance; synonyms (n) import, sense, connotation, consequence, meaning, moment, purport, effect, intent, concern, implication, importance, point, weight, gist; antonyms (n) insignificance, triviality, 2. meaning; synonyms (n) design, essence, aim, content, intention, significance, drift, interpretation, explanation, idea, moral, overtone, plan, purpose, spirit, 3. value (Baptictb); synonyms (n) merit, cost, appraise, rate, regard, (v) price, appreciate, assess, esteem, evaluate, cherish, estimate, measure, prize, rank; antonyms (n) disadvantage, futility, uselessness, 4. sense; synonyms (n) intelligence, perception, sensation, logic, awareness, experience, feeling, impression, notion, reason, understanding, (v) feel, intellect, mind, perceive; antonyms (n) garbage, ludicrousness, nonsense, stupidity, foolishness, gibberish, 5. consequence; synonyms (n) outcome, product, result, account, aftermath, conclusion, corollary, event, backwash, end, impact, inference, influence, issue, matter; antonyms (n) cause, inconsequence, **6**. bearing; *synonyms* (n) carriage, demeanor, appearance, approach, aspect, attitude, conduct, deportment, direction, manner, respect, air, behavior, comportment, mien, 7, importance: synonyms (n) greatness, gravity, dignity, emphasis. prominence, stress, value, magnitude, prestige, seriousness, distinction, grandeur, impressiveness, interest, pith; antonym (n) unimportance, 8. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, score, tale, description, history, narration, recital, story, tab, tally, bulletin, (v) report, calculate, 9. import; synonyms (n) betoken, substance, core, express, worth, denotation, export. (v) denote, imply, introduce, mean, spell, carry. bring, indicate, 10. sound; synonyms (n) echo, peal, (v) ring, chime, fast, (adj) reasonable, complete, healthy, fit,

- good, just, rational, right, sane, sensible; *antonyms* (n) silence, (adj) illogical, unsound, confused.
- **ЗНАЧИТИ** mean; *synonyms* (v) intend, design, imply, denote, involve, (*adj*) middle, base, common, hateful, ignoble, medium, miserly, (n) average, contemptible, low; *antonyms* (*adj*) generous, kind.
- **значний 1**. considerable; *synonyms* (adj) big, large, ample, great, momentous, significant, sizable, substantial, consequential, influential, meaningful, pretty, extensive, fair, (v) important; antonyms (adj) small, insignificant, faint, trivial, 2. important; synonyms (adj) essential, grave, fundamental, chief, crucial, key, remarkable, serious, earnest, authoritative, central, considerable, critical, decisive, distinguished; antonyms (adj) unimportant, minor, irrelevant, low, worthless, 3. handsome; synonyms (adj) elegant, beautiful, charming, fine, generous, attractive, bountiful, comely, bonny, bounteous, exquisite, gorgeous, graceful, liberal, lovely; antonyms (adj) ugly, unattractive, 4. notable; synonyms (adj) conspicuous, celebrated, eminent, illustrious, extraordinary, famous, memorable. renowned, famed, marked, noted, noteworthy, (n) celebrity, luminary, notability; antonym (adj) ordinary, 5. pretty; synonyms (adv) very, fairly, jolly, quite, rather, somewhat, (adj) handsome, good-looking, picturesque, dainty, cute, neat, pleasing, smart, (n) nice, 6. smart; synonyms (adj) bright, crafty, dapper, quick, shrewd, sly, prompt, astute, chic, clever, intelligent, (v) ache, hurt, (n) pain, sharp; antonyms (adj) scruffy, stupid, dim, shabby, unkempt, slow, 7. intense; synonyms (adj) acute, ardent, brilliant, deep, fervent, fierce, burning, energetic, extreme, fiery, furious, heated, rich, severe, (v) vivid; antonyms (adj) mild, calm, dull, weak, imperceptible, slight, 8. respectable; synonyms (adj) reputable, decorous, decent, estimable, good, honorable, proper, creditable, passable, becoming, honest, goodish, goodly, hefty, modest; antonym (adj) disreputable, 9. significant; synonyms (adj) material, emphatic, expressive, indicative, major, pregnant, relevant, meaning, solemn, eloquent, historic, portentous, prominent, vital, appreciable.
- 3HA4HO 1. well (Добре); synonyms (adv) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, good, (adj) healthy, fit, shaft, sound, robust, (n) fountain, spring, pit, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous, 2. considerably; synonyms (adv) well, much, substantially, very, greatly, hugely, immensely, largely, markedly, noticeably, rather, significantly, sizably, advantageously, (adj) quite; antonyms (adv) insignificantly, slightly, 3. greatly; synonyms (adv) exceedingly, too, awfully, enormously, exceptionally, extremely, dearly, abundantly, intensely, mightily, highly, infinitely, profoundly, (adj) far, deeply, 4. much; synonyms (adv) frequently, almost, most, often, pretty, nearly, (n) lot, heap, multitude, plenty, (adj) great, considerable, practically, muckle, rag.
- **ЗНАЮЧИЙ 1.** wise; *synonyms* (*adj*) judicious, reasonable, sensible, intelligent, knowing, prudent, rational, sagacious, sound, discreet, shrewd, sane, discerning, thoughtful, (*n*) method; *antonyms* (*adj*) foolish, unwise, stupid, **2.** knowing; *synonyms* (*v*)

- canny, wise, (*adj*) astute, aware, conscious, crafty, bright, conversant, ingenious, smart, understanding, erudite, experienced, (*n*) clever, cunning.
- 3HeBaγa 1. contempt; synonyms (n) disdain, scorn, derision, disrespect, disregard, mockery, ridicule, shame, slight, reproach, discourtesy, disrepute, arrogance, defiance, disgrace; antonyms (n) respect, approval, 2. neglect; synonyms (n) carelessness, delinquency, negligence, omission, mistake, abandonment, failure, (ν) fail, forget, ignore, overlook, default, drop, omit, discount; antonyms (n) development, surveillance, (ν) attention, care, complete, do, protect.
- 3HEBAЖATU 1. ignore; synonyms (v) fail, neglect, cut, discount, disregard, forget, omit, snub, overrule, dismiss, overlook, rebuff, shun, disobey, eliminate; antonyms (v) acknowledge, observe, honor, react, 2. neglect; synonyms (n) slight, carelessness, delinquency, negligence, omission, mistake, abandonment, failure, heedlessness, inattention, oversight, (v) ignore, default, drop, disdain; antonyms (n) development, surveillance, (v) attention, care, complete, do, protect.
- **ЗНЕВІРЕНИЙ** hopeless; *synonyms* (*adj*) despairing, despondent, forlorn, incurable, disconsolate, abject, desperate, impossible, useless, dismal, desolate, futile, helpless, inadequate, incompetent; *antonyms* (*adj*) hopeful, cheerful, competent, promising.
- **3ненацька** suddenly; *synonyms* (*adv*) abruptly, short, sudden, presto, dead, hastily, rapidly, fast, instantly, sharply, unawares, precipitously, (*adj*) quickly, immediately, instanter; *antonyms* (*adv*) gradually, increasingly, predictably, slowly.
- **ЗНИЖЕНИЙ** cut; *synonyms* (v) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (n) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (v) increase, lengthen, (n) addition, extension.
- зниження 1. decrease; synonyms (n) decline, cut, cutback, diminution, (v) abate, lessen, abridge, diminish, fall, curtail, lower, wane, contract, decay, detract; antonyms (n) growth, extension, (v) increase, rise, grow, intensify, 2. reduction; synonyms (n) contraction, decrease, decrement, rebate, depreciation, discount, drop, lessening, reducing, deduction, degradation, conversion, abatement, abridgement, allowance; antonyms (n) intensification, strengthening, expansion. restoration, 3. descent; synonyms (n) ancestry, birth, blood, declension, declination, declivity, derivation, extraction, family, lineage, origin, pedigree, breed, beginning, raid; antonyms (n) ascent, improvement, 4. decline; synonyms (n) dip, descent, deterioration, (v) reject, ebb, fail, refuse, sink, deny, deteriorate, spurn, worsen, slant, (adj) fade, languish; antonyms (n) recovery, development, rebirth, (v) accept, flourish, improve.
- **ЗНИЖКА 1.** discount; *synonyms* (*n*) deduction, rebate, allowance, bargain, decrease, reduction, (*v*) reduce, disregard, ignore, neglect, deduct, depreciate, cut, dismiss, reject; *antonym* (*v*) increase, **2.** allowance; *synonyms* (*n*) allotment, admission, discount, quota, tolerance, maintenance, abatement, acknowledgment, adjustment, allocation, compensation, concession, fee, grant, indulgence.

- 3HUЖуВАТИ 1. discount; synonyms (n) deduction, rebate, allowance, bargain, decrease, reduction, (v) reduce, disregard, ignore, neglect, deduct, depreciate, cut, dismiss, reject; antonym (v) increase, 2. lower; synonyms (adj) debase, inferior, (v) degrade, diminish, frown, humble, dip, abase, descend, drop, scowl, disgrace, demean, fall, (n) depress; antonym (v) raise, 3. reduce; synonyms (v) lower, pare, abbreviate, curtail, abate, condense, contract, shorten, concentrate, compress, conquer, detract, dilute, (adj) abridge, lessen; antonyms (v) bolster, expand, enlarge, exacerbate, intensify.
- **ЗНИЖУВАТИСЯ** lower; *synonyms* (*adj*) debase, inferior, (*v*) degrade, diminish, frown, humble, dip, abase, cut, descend, drop, scowl, disgrace, decrease, (*n*) depress; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, raise.
- **3HU3UTU** lower; *synonyms* (*adj*) debase, inferior, (*v*) degrade, diminish, frown, humble, dip, abase, cut, descend, drop, scowl, disgrace, decrease, (*n*) depress; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, raise.
- **3HUKATH 1**. disappear; *synonyms* (v) die, vanish, melt, fade, depart, dematerialize, sink, go, pass, end, abscond, fall, scram, disperse, dissolve; *antonyms* (v) appear, stay, **2**. die; *synonyms* (v) decease, dead, death, expire, conk, croak, break, cease, fail, perish, starve, succumb, wither, (n) dice, matrix.
- **зникнення** disappearance; *synonyms* (*n*) evanescence, loss, vanishing, going, disappearing, evaporation, fade, departure, passing, death, exodus, fading, occultation, receding, removal; *antonyms* (*n*) appearance, recurrence.
- **ЗНИКНУТИ** disappear; *synonyms* (v) die, vanish, melt, fade, depart, dematerialize, sink, go, pass, end, abscond, fall, scram, disperse, dissolve; *antonyms* (v) appear, stav
- **ЗНИЩЕННЯ 1.** demolition; *synonyms* (*n*) annihilation, demolishment, destruction, devastation, obliteration, ruin, razing, sabotage, death, disposal, bulldozing, destroyer, downfall, end, explosion; *antonym* (*n*) construction, **2.** abolition; *synonyms* (*n*) abolishment, annulment, ending, cancellation, eradication, repeal; *antonym* (*n*) reinstatement.
- **ЗНИЩИТИ** destroy; *synonyms* (v) break, demolish, blight, despoil, annihilate, blast, crush, dash, destruct, devastate, devour, dismantle, (adj) desolate, abolish, consume; *antonyms* (v) build, preserve, create, make.
- **3HUILLY BATH 1.** destroy; *synonyms* (v) break, demolish, blight, despoil, annihilate, blast, crush, dash, destruct, devastate, devour, dismantle, (*adj*) desolate, abolish, consume; *antonyms* (v) build, preserve, create, make, **2**. blast; *synonyms* (n) bang, slam, burst, gust, (v) attack, blare, bomb, boom, detonate, roar, smash, blow, bombard, (*adj*) discharge, explosion, **3**. eliminate; *synonyms* (v) delete, rid, cancel, dispel, eradicate, extinguish, obliterate, take, clear, destroy, discard, dismiss, erase, except, exclude, **4**. kill; *synonyms* (v) assassinate, eliminate, finish, butcher, decimate, dispatch, execute, behead, efface, defeat, liquidate, massacre, (n) murder, game, prey.
- **3HIMAHHЯ** withdrawal; *synonyms* (*n*) removal, retirement, retreat, secession, departure, defection,

- desertion, recession, backdown, retraction, repeal, recall, exit, exodus, (v) subtraction.
- **3HOB** again; *synonyms* (*adv*) afresh, more, anew, encore, repeatedly, then, also, further, often.
- 3HOBY 1. again; synonyms (adv) afresh, more, anew, encore, repeatedly, then, also, further, often, 2. newly; synonyms (adv) lately, new, recently, freshly, late, fresh, again, latterly, 3. next; synonyms (adj) later, nearest, adjacent, contiguous, following, subsequent, future, coming, ensuing, after, close, near, adjoining, posterior, (adv) afterward; antonyms (adj) distant, outgoing, (adv) previous, preceding, previously.
- **ЗНОШЕНИЙ** shot; *synonyms* (n) gunshot, injection, go, fling, ball, crack, shoot, picture, attempt, bang, bullet, chance, discharge, effort, endeavor.
- **3HOШУВАННЯ** Wear; *synonyms* (v) dress, endure, bear, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, (n) clothing, apparel, attire, clothes, garb, erosion, garment; *antonym* (v) refresh.
- **3HOШУВАТИ** Wear; *synonyms* (ν) dress, endure, bear, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, (n) clothing, apparel, attire, clothes, garb, erosion, garment; *antonym* (ν) refresh.
- **ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАНИЙ** bound; *synonyms* (v) leap, border, bounce, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, (n) spring, jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, hop; *antonym* (adj) free.
- **30бов'язання 1**. obligation; synonyms (n) debt, bond, commitment, duty, liability, charge, burden, necessity, need, onus, requirement, responsibility, covenant, job, compulsion; antonym (n) option, 2. plight; synonyms (n) pledge, condition, predicament, fix, quandary, dilemma, case, guarantee, engagement, gage, scrape, (v) engage, promise, affiance, betroth, 3. bond; synonyms (n) association, tie, alliance, deed, agreement, cement, attachment, bail, connection, joint, link, adhesion, (v) bind, band, adhere, 4. debt; synonyms (n) debit, score, due, obligation, bill, indebtment, amount, cost, damage, deduction, dette, dueness, dues, expense, fees, 5. duty; synonyms (n) business, function, assignment, chore, must, office, part, tax, work, post, custom, assessment, commission, deference, impost, 6. commitment; synonyms (n) dedication, allegiance, appointment, committal, devotion, loyalty, confinement, consignment, contract, faithfulness, interest, 7. liability; synonyms (n) trust, blame, disadvantage, arrears, fault, accountability, encumbrance, indebtedness, load, exposure, susceptibility, accountableness, answerability, jeopardy; *antonym* (n) asset, **8**. undertaking; synonyms (n) enterprise, labor, task, attempt, project, venture, adventure, endeavor, effort, affair, action, game, plan, vow, mission.
- **зображати 1**. represent; *synonyms* (*v*) depict, portray, act, be, describe, embody, exemplify, illustrate, play, enact, make, impersonate, comprise, constitute, (*adf*) express, **2**. figure; *synonyms* (*n*) form, appearance, character, estimate, shape, cost, build, contour, emblem, fashion, (*v*) design, cast, count, calculate, cipher, **3**. describe; *synonyms* (*v*) define, delineate, outline, report, represent, state, draw, relate, qualify, characterize, designate, explain, name, narrate, recite.

- зображення 1. image; synonyms (n) figure, picture, fancy, conception, effigy, form, idea, impression, resemblance, design, double, epitome, icon, (v) depict, envision, 2. picture (картина); synonyms (n) photograph, paint, drawing, likeness, depiction, description, film, illustration, landscape, painting, (v) image, describe, draw, imagine, copy, 3. representation; synonyms (n) performance, presentation, diagram, portrait, model, emblem, appearance, example, agency, delegacy, delineation, exhibition, portrayal, presentment, sign, 4. description; synonyms (n) account, type, brand, explanation, kind, definition, narration, recital, report, representation, sort, statement, story, (adj) class, character, 5. portrait; synonyms (n) portraiture, characterization.
- **ЗОБРАЖУВАТИ** picture (картина); *synonyms* (n) photograph, effigy, paint, drawing, likeness, depiction, description, (v) image, describe, draw, depict, fancy, imagine, copy, envision.
- **306PA3HTH** represent; *synonyms* (*v*) depict, portray, act, be, describe, embody, exemplify, illustrate, play, enact, make, impersonate, comprise, constitute, (*adj*) express.
- **30BHi 1**. outside; *synonyms* (*adj*) external, out, outdoor, foreign, extraneous, outer, away, outward, remote, slight, surface, distant, (*adv*) outdoors, alfresco, (*n*) exterior; *antonyms* (*prep*) inside, in, (*adj*) indoor, internal, (*adv*) indoors, **2**. out; *synonyms* (*adv*) off, forward, beyond, forth, aside, abroad, by, outwards, (*v*) reveal, disclose, discover, (*adj*) extinct, outside, absent, gone.
- **зовнішній 1**. external; synonyms (adj) exterior, outside, extraneous, extrinsic, outward, foreign, outlying, peripheral, superficial, formal, exotic, objective, outdoor, outer, surface; antonyms (adj) inner, interior, internal, domestic, inmost, inside, 2. outer; synonyms (adj) external, utter; antonym (adj) middle, 3. formal; synonyms (adi) conventional, ceremonious, distant. ceremonial, courtly, elegant, official, prim, solemn, stately, cold, nominal, pedantic, precise, proper; antonyms (adj) informal, relaxed, unceremonious, 4. foreign; synonyms (adj) alien, strange, oversea, adventitious, outlandish, peregrine, remote, unfamiliar, unknown, different, imported, irrelevant, tramontane, unusual; antonyms (adj) native, familiar, 5. outdoor; antonym (adj) indoor, 6. outside; synonyms (prep) past, (adj) out, away, slight, maximum, negligible, top, international, largest, (adv) outdoors, alfresco, beyond, (n) periphery, outline; antonyms (prep) in, (adv) indoors.
- **30BHIIIHICTL** person; *synonyms* (n) fellow, human, individual, man, being, body, character, creature, mortal, soul, life, homo, form, organism, (v) party; *antonym* (n) automaton.
- 30BCiM 1. utterly; synonyms (adv) absolutely, completely, perfectly, altogether, entirely, totally, dead, extremely, fully, wholly, quite, all, simply, outright, very; antonym (adv) partially, 2. altogether; synonyms (adv) purely, ensemble, utterly, generally, thoroughly, whole; antonym (adv) partly, 3. quite; synonyms (adv) sheer, exactly, enough, even, fairly, rather, right, stark, well, awfully, far, pretty, somewhat, clean, (adj) just.

- **ЗОДЧЕСТВО** architecture; *synonyms* (*n*) building, frame, constitution, construction, framework, structure, formation, composition, edification, design, carcass, shape, engineering, planning, (*v*) organism.
- **ЗОДЧИЙ** architect; *synonyms* (*n*) creator, designer, founder, inventor, maker, originator, producer, artificer, author, builder, engineer, generator, manufacturer; *antonym* (*n*) destroyer.
- **30**ЛA ash; *synonyms* (n) jasmine, lilac, privet, spark, (v) cinder, scoriae, soot, (adj) gray.
- **30лотий 1.** golden; *synonyms* (*adj*) aureate, fortunate, gilded, auspicious, gilt, gold, lucky, advantageous, fair, favorable, favored, **2.** gold (30лото); *synonyms* (*n*) money, riches, wealth, treasure, yellow, amber, (*adj*) golden.
- **ЗОЛОТИСТИЙ** golden; *synonyms* (*adj*) aureate, fortunate, gilded, auspicious, gilt, gold, lucky, advantageous, fair, favorable, favored.
- **30ЛОТО** gold; *synonyms* (n) money, riches, wealth, treasure, yellow, amber, (adj) aureate, gilded, gilt, golden.
- **30Ha 1**. zone; *synonyms* (*n*) area, district, region, section, belt, locality, quarter, realm, layer, territory, province, neighborhood, orbit, circuit, division, **2**. area (площа); *synonyms* (*n*) place, size, width, expanse, field, sphere, breadth, compass, domain, extent, land, range, room, scope, space.
- **30H**Д probe; *synonyms* (n) investigation, inquiry, research, plumb, exploration, (v) examine, examination, explore, inspect, fathom, investigate, search, check, inquire, penetrate.
- **30HДУВАННЯ** probe; *synonyms* (n) investigation, inquiry, research, plumb, exploration, (v) examine, examination, explore, inspect, fathom, investigate, search, check, inquire, penetrate.
- 30HДУВАТИ 1. explore; *synonyms* (v) delve, examine, search, research, discover, hunt, investigate, plumb, probe, prospect, scrutinize, view, do, detect, spy, 2. probe; *synonyms* (n) investigation, inquiry, exploration, survey, (v) examination, explore, inspect, fathom, check, inquire, penetrate, question, sound, experiment, pierce.
- **ЗОНТИК** umbrella; *synonyms* (n) parasol, sunshade, shelter, canopy, cover, protection, screen, shield, tent, awning, covert, marquee, tilt, (adj) comprehensive.
- зоровий visual; synonyms (adj) visible, graphic, ocular, optic, optical, seeable, artistic, decorative, diagrammatic, drawn, (n) visuals, image, picture, design, diagram.
- 30pя star (Зірка); synonyms (n) asterisk, celebrity, ace, principal, headliner, leading, luminary, personality, champion, idol, lead, world, bigwig, (adj) asteriated, (v) feature; antonym (n) nobody.
- **ЗОСЕРЕДЖЕНИЙ** collected; *synonyms* (v) composed, (adj) calm, accumulated, amassed, assembled, cool, sober, tranquil, poised, unflappable, dispassionate, gathered, imperturbable, peaceful, placid; antonym (adj) agitated.
- **30СЕРЕДЖЕННЯ** 1. concentration; *synonyms* (n) absorption, concentrate, application, attention, engrossment, intensity, compactness, strength, thickness, aggregation, strengthening, condensation, convergence,

- denseness, density; *antonym* (n) distraction, **2**. assembly; *synonyms* (n) gathering, meeting, collection, congregation, convention, fabrication, multitude, assembling, body, chamber, cluster, company, conclave, concourse, (v) assemblage.
- **зосереджувати 1.** concentrate; *synonyms* (*v*) compress, centre, compact, condense, focus, abridge, center, congregate, consolidate, gather, listen, accumulate, collect, foreshorten, (*adj*) centralize; *antonym* (*v*) disperse, **2.** centre; *synonyms* (*n*) core, middle, heart, midpoint, (*v*) concentrate.
- **30HIUT** notebook; *synonyms* (n) book, laptop, pad, album, computer, file, machine, mainframe, processor, supercomputer, workstation, block, notepaper.
- **ЗРАДНИК** rat (пацюк, щур); *synonyms* (n) grass, informer, apostate, betrayer, scab, renegade, (v) blackleg, denounce, betray, peach, sing, apostatize, squeal, defect, inform.
- **зразковий 1**. model; *synonyms* (*n*) form, fashion, example, image, dummy, figure, prototype, frame, lesson, archetype, design, (*v*) copy, pattern, imitate, shape; *antonym* (*adj*) atypical, **2**. classic; *synonyms* (*adj*) classical, model, archetypal, exemplary, ideal, typical, representative, traditional, archaic, heroic, (*n*) masterpiece; *antonym* (*n*) second-rate.
- **зразок 1**. example; synonyms (n) case, exemplar, illustration, instance, lead, sample, design, guide, model, paradigm, pattern, precedent, prototype, archetype, piece, 2. pattern; synonyms (n) fashion, form, mold, shape, example, figure, norm, order, paragon, cast, arrangement, configuration, copy, formula, (v) mould, 3. specimen; synonyms (n) person, representative, type, 4. sample; synonyms (n) specimen, assay, appetizer, survey, (v) taste, try, attempt, essay, prove, sip, bit, (adj) test, trial, outline, 5. instance; synonyms (n) time, affair, chance, cause, event, occasion, occurrence, casing, (v) exemplify, illustrate, cite, entreaty, invitation, solicitation, supplication, 6. cast; synonyms (v) hurl, throw, shed, stamp, fling, chuck, dump, heave, pitch, pelt, assign, (n) appearance, casting, build, air, 7. model; synonyms (n) image, dummy, frame, lesson, epitome, manikin, mannequin, original, template, construct, (adj) ideal, miniature, classic, (v) imitate, carve; antonym (adj) atypical.
- **3PEYEHH9** denial; *synonyms* (*n*) negation, abnegation, renunciation, repulse, no, abjuration, contradiction, negative, refusal, rejection, forswearing, nay, abandonment, rebuff, rebuttal; *antonyms* (*n*) acceptance, affirmation, declaration, admission, confession.
- **3pelittoio 1.** eventually; *synonyms* (*adv*) finally, even, someday, afterward, consecutively, consequentially, continuously, necessarily, through, hereafter, heretofore, (*conj*) yet, however, nevertheless, notwithstanding; *antonyms* (*adv*) instantly, promptly, **2.** ultimately; *synonyms* (*adv*) eventually, lastly, completely.
- **ЗРІВНОВАЖЕНИЙ** balanced; *synonyms* (*adj*) equal, even, firm, regular, stable, steady, harmonious, impartial, steadfast, symmetrical, uniform, fast, fixed, secure, unprejudiced; *antonyms* (*adj*) biased, unbalanced, unfair.

- **ЗРІДКА** occasionally; *synonyms* (*adv*) sometimes, irregularly, periodically, seldom, infrequently, uncommonly; *antonyms* (*adv*) frequently, regularly.
- **зрікатися** deny; *synonyms* (*v*) contradict, controvert, decline, disavow, rebuff, abnegate, disown, gainsay, oppose, refuse, reject, renounce, abjure, contravene, disallow; *antonyms* (*v*) admit, affirm, acknowledge, claim, declare, agree, maintain.
- **зрілий 1**. ripe; *synonyms* (*adj*) mature, adult, ready, advanced, good, prepared, perfect, matured, consummate, right, (*v*) mellow; *antonym* (*adj*) green, **2**. mature; *synonyms* (*adj*) ripe, complete, aged, developed, experienced, fledged, old, due, (*v*) grow, ripen, develop, age, maturate, season, digest; *antonyms* (*adj*) childish, naive, unripe, young, sophomoric, (*v*) immature.
- **3PLITCTb** maturity; *synonyms* (n) ripeness, adulthood, matureness, perfection, majority, age, development, readiness, prime; *antonyms* (n) childhood, youth, immaturity.
- **3PICT** height (Bucota); *synonyms* (n) acme, apex, altitude, crest, culmination, peak, pinnacle, top, climax, degree, elevation, eminence, grade, high, level; *antonym* (n) shortness.
- **ЗРОБИТИ** 1. do; *synonyms* (*v*) act, cheat, commit, accomplish, complete, conduct, perform, achieve, make, practice, defraud, answer, arrange, (*n*) function, occasion; *antonyms* (*v*) neglect, unmake, **2**. make (робити); *synonyms* (*v*) build, cause, construct, do, create, fashion, force, get, give, produce, let, compel, constitute, design, (*n*) form; *antonyms* (*v*) destroy, lose.
- **зроблений** made; *synonyms* (*adj*) finished, built, ready, constructed, formed, prepared, synthetic, bound, complete, completed, ended, fictitious, rabid, through.
- **зрозумі**лий 1. transparent; synonyms (adj) diaphanous, lucid, obvious, plain, luminous, filmy, limpid, sheer, crystalline, gauzy, pellucid, gossamer, apparent, (n) clear, bright; antonyms (adj) opaque, solid, 2. coherent; synonyms (adj) logical, rational, consistent, tenacious, orderly, comprehensible, connected, sound; antonyms (adj) incoherent, illogical, confused, disjointed, rambling, 3. obvious; synonyms (adj) visible, conspicuous, distinct, evident, flagrant, open, blatant, discernible, glaring, manifest, marked, noticeable, perceptible, undeniable, unmistakable; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, obscure, hidden, imperceptible, unclear, undetectable, concealed, slight, subtle, 4. plain; synonyms (adj) ordinary, intelligible, downright, easy, homely, humble, level, simple, perspicuous, overt, outspoken, direct, dull, even, (n) flat; antonyms (adj) elaborate, fancy, mottled, multicolored, ornate, attractive, fussy, two-colored, 5. understandable; synonyms (adj) apprehensible, graspable, comprehendible, excusable, legible, perceivable, reasonable; antonyms (adj) indefensible, inexcusable, unintelligible, illegible, inexplicable, unpardonable.
- 3PO3YMIJIO naturally; synonyms (adv) course, innately, obviously, spontaneously, unaffectedly, openly, (int) certainly; antonyms (adv) unnaturally, artificially.

- **3po3yMiTu** 1. understand; *synonyms* (ν) interpret, recognize, catch, hear, learn, realize, see, appreciate, assume, believe, comprehend, construe, deduce, gather, grasp; *antonyms* (ν) misinterpret, misconstrue, misunderstand, **2**. grasp; *synonyms* (n) grip, clasp, clutch, clinch, appreciation, apprehension, (ν) embrace, hold, apprehend, grapple, conceive, capture, cling, grab, clench; *antonym* (ν) release.
- **3POCTAHHЯ** 1. growth; *synonyms* (n) development, accretion, augmentation, evolution, gain, increase, enlargement, germination, accumulation, accession, addition, advance, improvement, increment, (ν) grow; *antonyms* (n) decrease, reduction, weakening, decline, 2. increase; *synonyms* (n) boom, expansion, extension, growth, progress, rise, (ν) accrue, extend, aggrandize, expand, enhance, enlarge, deepen, accumulate, (*adj*) augment; *antonyms* (n) contraction, (ν) reduce, diminish, drop, deteriorate.
- **3poctatu** increase; *synonyms* (n) gain, addition, augmentation, boom, expansion, extension, (v) advance, accrue, extend, grow, aggrandize, expand, enhance, enlarge, (adj) augment; *antonyms* (n) reduction, contraction, decline, (v) decrease, reduce, diminish, drop, deteriorate.
- **3POIIIYBATU** flood; *synonyms* (n) deluge, pour, torrent, stream, (v) drench, flow, inundate, glut, drown, flush, gush, rush, submerge, swamp, (*prep*) tide; *antonyms* (n) drought, shortage, (v) trickle.
- **3PyйHyBAHHЯ** destruction; *synonyms* (n) death, collapse, ruin, abolition, damage, demolition, desolation, devastation, downfall, end, bane, depredation, disaster, (v) defeat, doom; *antonyms* (n) construction, creation, preservation, protection, conservation, formation, reparation.
- 3PYЙHYBATII destroy; synonyms (v) break, demolish, blight, despoil, annihilate, blast, crush, dash, destruct, devastate, devour, dismantle, (adj) desolate, abolish, consume; antonyms (v) build, preserve, create, make.
- **зручний 1**. convenient; synonyms (adj) comfortable, commodious, handy, advantageous, appropriate, expedient, fit, near, nearby, opportune, ready, timely, useful, snug, (n) favorable; antonyms (adj) inconvenient, fixed, unwieldy, useless, 2. comfortable; synonyms (adj) cozy, easy, agreeable, pleased, pleasing, prosperous, congenial, pleasurable, rich, enjoyable, content, contented, homely, (v) calm, luxurious; antonyms (adj) uncomfortable, poor, formal, tense, unpleasant, intimidating, unaccustomed, unhappy, 3. easy; synonyms (adj) convenient, gentle, familiar, graceful, lenient, light, clear, casual, comfy, cushy, easygoing, effortless, free, (adv) soft, easily; antonyms (adj) difficult, arduous, demanding, hard, laborious, burdensome, particular, strenuous, tough, awkward, testing, uneasy, 4. suitable; synonyms (adj) good, apt, proper, right, eligible, apposite, correct, desirable. fitting, pertinent, due, decorous, respectable, (n) seasonable, (v) becoming; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, unsuitable, wrong, improper, 5. practical; synonyms (adj) operative, practicable, efficient, feasible, functional, pragmatic, realistic, helpful, active, positive, sensible,

- workable, working, constructive, hardheaded; *antonyms* (*adj*) impractical, theoretical, unrealistic, impossible.
- **зручність** convenience; *synonyms* (n) advantage, contrivance, accommodation, opportunity, appliance, comfort, fitness, leisure, occasion, utility, amenity, benefit, easement, expediency, gadget; *antonym* (n) inconvenience.
- 3y6 tooth; synonyms (n) palate, grain, nap, saw, stomach, tongue, liking, fiber, point, spicule, wire, apophysis, bulb, (adj) nib, (v) bite.
- **ЗУБИ** teeth; *synonyms* (*n*) ivory, dentition, odontiasis, vice, hold, (*v*) arrastra, fangs, file, grater, gristmill, mill, rasp, tenaculum, tentacle, unguis.
- **ЗУБИЛО** bit; *synonyms* (*n*) crumb, morsel, piece, atom, drop, fleck, fragment, moment, part, portion, shred, snatch, (*v*) curb, scrap, scantling.
- **ЗУПИНЕННЯ** stopping; *synonyms* (*n*) guttural, labial, liquid, mute. **ЗУПИНЕННЯ** stopping; *synonyms* (*adj*) intercepting, intercipient, (*n*) stoppage, shutdown, fillet, padding, discontinuance, stay, tompion, tourniquet, filet, lemniscus, stopper, stuffing, wadding.
- **ЗУПИНИТИ** stop; *synonyms* (*v*) stand, block, close, delay, interrupt, obstruct, plug, (*n*) halt, hold, stay, check, end, arrest, bar, cease; *antonyms* (*v*) continue, start, begin, encourage, permit, prolong.
- **ЗУПИНКА** 1. stop; *synonyms* (*v*) stand, block, close, delay, interrupt, obstruct, plug, (*n*) halt, hold, stay, check, end, arrest, bar, cease; *antonyms* (*v*) continue, start, begin, encourage, permit, prolong, **2**. halt; *synonyms* (*n*) cessation, suspension, standstill, deadlock, (*v*) stop, limp, desist, discontinue, pause, freeze, break, waver, brake, finish, (*adj*) flag, **3**. stopping; *synonyms* (*adj*) intercepting, intercipient, (*n*) stoppage, shutdown, fillet, padding, discontinuance, tompion, tourniquet, filet, lemniscus, stopper, stuffing, wadding, taenia, **4**. pause; *synonyms* (*n*) intermission, interruption, rest, gap, interval, respite, breather, hesitation, abeyance, hiatus, (*v*) adjournment, hesitate, intermit, falter, demur; *antonym* (*n*) decisiveness.
- **ЗУПИНЯТИ 1**. stop; *synonyms* (v) stand, block, close, delay, interrupt, obstruct, plug, (n) halt, hold, stay, check, end, arrest, bar, cease; antonyms (v) continue, start, begin, encourage, permit, prolong, 2. halt; synonyms (n) cessation, suspension, standstill, deadlock, (v) stop. limp, desist, discontinue, pause, freeze, break, waver, brake, finish, (adj) flag, 3. hold; synonyms (v) keep, detain, endure, adhere, bear, comprise, contain, entertain, have, carry, confine, (n) grasp, grip, clasp, clutch; antonym (v) release, 4. damp; synonyms (adj) moist, muggy, clammy, cool, dank, humid, (v) chill, deaden, benumb, cut, dampen, (n) wet, dampness, moisture, clamminess; antonyms (adj) dry, (n) dryness, 5. cease; synonyms (v) quit, terminate, abstain, conclude, drop, expire, lapse, leave, abandon, die, perish, refrain, stint, (n) termination, (adj) abate, 6. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, line, pub, snag, fence, barrier, (v) ban, bolt, exclude, balk, dam, foreclose, restrict, blockade; antonym (v) allow.
- **зупинятися 1**. stop; *synonyms* (*v*) stand, block, close, delay, interrupt, obstruct, plug, (*n*) halt, hold, stay, check, end, arrest, bar, cease; *antonyms* (*v*) continue, start,

- begin, encourage, permit, prolong, **2**. stay; *synonyms* (v) remain, reside, rest, prop, stop, abide, endure, pause, bide, dwell, support, linger, lodge, persist, (*adj*) inhabit; *antonyms* (v) leave, change, abscond, depart.
- **Зусилля 1.** effort; *synonyms* (n) attempt, exertion, application, drive, endeavor, struggle, trial, trouble, try, diligence, bid, push, campaign, cause, crusade, **2**. stress; *synonyms* (n) accent, emphasis, pressure, tension, force, importance, pinch, effort, accentuation, (v) strain, emphasize, accentuate, emphasise, punctuate, underline, **3**. pains; *synonyms* (n) toil, labor, nisus, care, striving, duty.
- 3УСТРІТИ 1. encounter; synonyms (n) collision, combat, battle, conflict, contest, action, brush, confrontation, impact, (v) clash, confront, experience, face, find, rencounter; antonym (v) retreat, 2. meet (зустрічати); synonyms (v) converge, assemble, congregate, encounter, fulfill, gather, answer, cross, intersect, abut, concur, adjoin, collect, convene, (adj) fit; antonyms (v) avoid, disperse, diverge.
- зустріч 1. meeting (збори); synonyms (n) confluence, convention, gathering, concourse, assembly, conference, congress, council, appointment, caucus, encounter, junction, meet, convocation, conclave; antonym (n) divergence, 2. reception; synonyms (n) receipt, acceptance, admission, entertainment, greeting, party, receiving, adoption, getting, salutation, acceptation, comprehension, admittance, inclusion, (adj) soiree, 3. encounter; synonyms (n) collision, combat, battle, conflict, contest, action, brush, confrontation, impact, (v) clash, confront, experience, face, find, rencounter; antonym (v) retreat, 4. appointment; synonyms (n) assignment, date, designation, engagement, fitting, post, rendezvous, berth, election, assignation, commission, job, meeting, naming, office.
- зустрічати meet; synonyms (v) converge, find, assemble, congregate, encounter, fulfill, gather, answer, cross, confront, intersect, abut, concur, adjoin, (adj) fit; antonyms (v) avoid, disperse, diverge.
- **3VCTPIHATUCЯ** occur; *synonyms* (v) arise, happen, befall, come, fall, betide, chance, appear, be, develop, materialize, arrive, go, ensue, pass.
- **ЗУСТРІЧНИЙ** counter; *synonyms* (n) buffet, bench, reverse, (v) reply, contradict, resist, answer, react, respond, retort, thwart, (*adj*) converse, antagonistic, contrary, opposite.
- 3УХВАЛИЙ bold; synonyms (adj) adventurous, audacious, manly, resolute, arrogant, barefaced, courageous, daring, fearless, heroic, intrepid, spirited, stalwart, bluff, brave; antonyms (adj) cowardly, timid, modest.
- **3ЦІЛЯТИ** cure; *synonyms* (*n*) remedy, antidote, medicine, salve, curative, curing, healing, therapy, (*v*) correct, help, treat, heal, pickle, preserve, restore.
- **ЗЧЕПЛЕНИЙ** coherent; *synonyms* (*adj*) logical, rational, consistent, lucid, tenacious, clear, orderly, comprehensible, connected, sound; *antonyms* (*adj*) incoherent, illogical, confused, disjointed, rambling.

- **34EIIJIEHHЯ** linking; *synonyms* (*n*) junction, binding, link, association, concatenation, continuity, (*prep*) connecting, between, concerning, involving, relating.
- 3чіплювати link; synonyms (n) connection, join, joint, bond, concatenation, (v) combine, tie, connect, couple, associate, attach, bridge, fasten, relate, yoke; antonym (v) separate.
- **3'ЯВИТИСЯ** appear; *synonyms* (*v*) occur, rise, seem, sound, emerge, show, break, arise, arrive, begin, feel, happen, look, surface, (*n*) come; *antonyms* (*v*) disappear, vanish.
- **3'3'3B**, **IEHH3** appearance; *synonyms* (*n*) air, face, look, semblance, shape, show, advent, apparition, form, image, impression, manner, surface, view, appear; *antonyms* (*n*) disappearance, departure, vanishing.
- 3'являтися 1. appear; synonyms (v) occur, rise, seem, sound, emerge, show, break, arise, arrive, begin, feel, happen, look, surface, (n) come; antonyms (v) disappear, vanish, 2. arise; synonyms (v) appear, ascend, issue, mount, originate, proceed, result, awake, commence, develop, emanate, ensue, follow, grow, lift, 3. emerge; synonyms (v) spring, transpire, escape, loom, materialize, peep, leak.
- **З'ЯСОВНИЙ** accountable; *synonyms* (*adj*) amenable, answerable, responsible, (*v*) liable.
- **з'ясовування** identification; *synonyms* (*n*) designation, finding, id, identity, mark, naming, papers, remembering, badge, recognition, denomination.
- **3'ЯСОВУВАТИСЯ** emerge; *synonyms* (*v*) appear, arise, emanate, spring, transpire, develop, issue, occur, rise, surface, begin, escape, loom, materialize, originate.

## T

- i and; *synonyms* (*conj*) with, (*adv*) also, additionally, (*prep*) plus, including, (*adj*) more.
- irHopyBath 1. ignore; synonyms (v) fail, neglect, cut, discount, disregard, forget, omit, snub, overrule, dismiss, overlook, rebuff, shun, disobey, eliminate; antonyms (v) acknowledge, observe, honor, react, 2. eliminate; synonyms (v) abolish, delete, rid, annihilate, cancel, dispel, eradicate, extinguish, obliterate, take, clear, destroy, discard, erase, except.
- **іграшка** toy; *synonyms* (*n*) plaything, (*adj*) miniature, trick, (*v*) play, coquet, dally, fiddle, flirt, sport, trifle, act, trinket, tinker, disport, fool.
- iдеал ideal; synonyms (adj) fanciful, perfect, consummate, abstract, classic, imaginary, typical, (n) model, paragon, example, apotheosis, archetype, epitome, perfection, prototype.
- **ідеальний 1.** ideal; *synonyms* (*adj*) fanciful, perfect, consummate, abstract, classic, imaginary, typical, (*n*) model, paragon, example, apotheosis, archetype, epitome, perfection, prototype, **2.** perfect; *synonyms* (*adj*) complete, exact, utter, entire, faultless, thorough, exquisite, integral, blameless, clean, correct, (*v*) achieve,

- accomplish, (n) absolute, full; antonyms (adj) imperfect, faulty, flawed.
- ідентифікатор identifier; synonym (n) qualifier.
- **ідентифікація** identification; *synonyms* (n) designation, finding, id, identity, mark, naming, papers, remembering, badge, recognition, denomination.
- **ідентифікувати** identify; *synonyms* (*v*) distinguish, detect, discover, name, ascertain, find, know, mark, pinpoint, place, recognize, see, spot, tell, describe.
- iдентичний identical; synonyms (adj) equal, corresponding, uniform, consistent, alike, equivalent, selfsame, similar, very, synonymous, congruent, duplicate, even, exact, (v) same; antonyms (adj) different, incompatible, inconsistent.
- **ідентичність** identity; *synonyms* (*n*) identicalness, unity, individuality, personality, sameness, character, equality, person, similarity, equivalence.
- **ідеологічний** ideological; *synonyms* (*adj*) ideologic, mental, theoretical, utopian.
- **ідеологія** ideology; *synonyms* (*n*) philosophy, belief, theory, opinion, approach, attitude, creed, method, partisanship, policy, precept, principle, rule, system, values.
- iges 1. idea; synonyms (n) belief, concept, meaning, opinion, apprehension, conception, consideration, design, estimation, fancy, impression, notion, plan, thought, suggestion, 2. concept; synonyms (n) idea, theory, view, vision, construct, perception, 3. thought; synonyms (v) observation, regard, (n) feeling, reflection, sentiment, judgment, attention, care, cogitation, mind, thinking, heed, intention, cerebration, contemplation; antonym (n) fact, 4. notion; synonyms (n) caprice, image, imagination, guess, hunch, conjecture, inkling, suspicion, whim, impulse, effect, fantasy, hint, sense, supposition.
- iniot idiot; synonyms (n) fool, dolt, dunce, dimwit, moron, ass, cretin, imbecile, oaf, changeling, dumbbell, half-wit, innocent, jerk, natural.
- iдiотський daft; synonyms (adj) crazy, wacky, bonkers, demented, foolish, nutty, balmy, inane, barmy, batty, dotty, halvier, idiotic, insane, insensate; antonym (adj)
- **icpapxis** hierarchy; *synonyms* (n) order, rank, class, apparatus, executive, hagiocracy, hierocracy, scale, ladder, ranking, society, tree.
- i3 with; synonyms (prep) by, for, alongside, among, plus, (adv) on, beside, (adj) including, (n) withe.
- ізолюється isolated; synonyms (adj) detached, apart, deserted, separate, distant, desolate, insular, lone, lonely, lonesome, remote, separated, single, solitary, sporadic; antonym (adj) inhabited.
- **ізоляція 1.** isolation; *synonyms* (n) alienation, estrangement, insulation, privacy, dissociation, loneliness, seclusion, secrecy, solitude, desolation, segregation, separation, disaffection; *antonyms* (n) closeness, companionship, **2.** insulation; *synonyms* (n) insularity, insulating, detachment, insulant, lining, isolation, insularism, blubber, breakup, casing, coat, cover, covering, disengagement, exclusiveness.

- intosis illusion; synonyms (n) delusion, hallucination, fantasy, apparition, deception, fancy, magic, chimera, deceit, dissimulation, fallacy, phantom, trick, vision, figment; antonym (n) reality.
- i.пострація 1. illustration; *synonyms* (*n*) example, case, chart, depiction, description, exemplification, figure, instance, demonstration, drawing, explanation, image, model, picture, sample, 2. demonstration; *synonyms* (*n*) parade, proof, argument, display, manifestation, presentation, demo, evidence, exhibition, illustration, show, testimony, showing, indication, (*v*) exposition.
- iлюструвати 1. illustrate; synonyms (v) elucidate, explain, demonstrate, depict, describe, explicate, clarify, adorn, cite, decorate, embellish, expound, represent, show, (adj) exemplify, 2. demonstrate; synonyms (v) prove, authenticate, attest, display, establish, exhibit, present, argue, certify, confirm, evidence, indicate, manifest, verify, try; antonyms (v) disprove, conceal.
- **іменний 1**. registered; *synonyms* (*adj*) enrolled, booked, conscript, denoted, destined, indicated, measured, **2**. nominal; *synonyms* (*adj*) titular, formal, token, minimal, minimum, nominative, (*v*) cognominal; *antonym* (*adj*) real.
- **imenhuk 1**. noun; *synonyms* (v) expression, term, **2**. substantive; *synonyms* (adj) real, essential, meaty, significant, material, actual, strong, crucial, hearty, indispensable, satisfying, (n) noun, substantial, name, reality.
- **imeHyBath** name; *synonyms* (*n*) call, title, epithet, address, appellation, (*v*) appoint, baptize, describe, cite, designate, entitle, enumerate, identify, list, mention.
- імідж image; synonyms (n) figure, picture, fancy, conception, effigy, form, idea, impression, resemblance, design, double, epitome, icon, (v) depict, envision.
- imitatis imitation; synonyms (n) counterfeit, dummy, sham, copy, forgery, mockery, duplicate, mock, (adj) fake, bogus, false, artificial, ersatz, phony, (v) parody; antonyms (n) original, (adj) genuine, real.
- **імла 1.** fog; *synonyms* (n) cloud, haze, vapor, brume, confusion, daze, damp, smoke, (v) mist, confuse, blur, dim, becloud, befog, darken, **2.** mist; *synonyms* (n) fog, film, steam, rain, (v) cover, obscure, drizzle, bedim, hide, squirt.
- **immirpauis** immigration; *synonyms* (n) migration, colonization, entrance, relocation, journey, movement, passage, resettlement, voyage, (ν) emigration, intermigration.
- iмовірний 1. probable; synonyms (adj) credible, likely, plausible, possible, potential, feasible, hopeful, convincing, believable, specious, conceivable, presumptive, verisimilar, apparent; antonyms (adj) unlikely, improbable, 2. feasible; synonyms (adj) practicable, probable, fit, achievable, available, doable, practical, realizable, viable, attainable, executable, thinkable, workable; antonym (adj) impossible, 3. likely; synonyms (adj) expected, apt, prospective, imaginable, disposed, future, alike, like, promising, prone, predictable, (adv) possibly, belike, probably.
- **imoBipHicTL 1**. probability; *synonyms* (*n*) chance, likelihood, odds, possibility, likeliness, opportunity, expectation, eventuality, prospect, contingency,

- expectancy, danger, outlook, chances, verisimilitude, **2**. expectancy; *synonyms* (*n*) expectance, anticipation, hope, suspense, reversion, **3**. likelihood; *synonyms* (*n*) probability, appearance, option, plausibility; *antonyms* (*n*) unlikelihood, improbability.
- imneparop emperor; synonyms (n) sovereign, monarch, ruler, imperator, king, judge, majesty, potentate, president, protector, stadholder, crown, commander, queen
- **IMПЕРАТОРСЬКИЙ** imperial; *synonyms* (*adj*) majestic, royal, dignified, grand, imperious, noble, purple, regal, stately, kingly, lordly, magnificent, sovereign, splendid, (*n*) beard.
- imnepian imperial; synonyms (adj) majestic, royal, dignified, grand, imperious, noble, purple, regal, stately, kingly, lordly, magnificent, sovereign, splendid, (n) heard
- **імперія** empire; *synonyms* (n) dominion, kingdom, rule, domain, realm, reign, authority, nation, control, sway, command, government, monarchy, principality, state.
- **ІМПЕРСЬКИЙ** imperial; *synonyms* (*adj*) majestic, royal, dignified, grand, imperious, noble, purple, regal, stately, kingly, lordly, magnificent, sovereign, splendid, (*n*) beard.
- imπopT import; synonyms (n) consequence, meaning, sense, effect, connotation, implication, importance, moment, purport, significance, value, betoken, (ν) matter, denote, imply; antonym (ν) export.
- **imnoptyBatu** import; *synonyms* (n) consequence, meaning, sense, effect, connotation, implication, importance, moment, purport, significance, value, betoken, (v) matter, denote, imply; *antonym* (v) export.
- imhyjjec 1. impulse; synonyms (n) impetus, pulse, urge, drive, force, impulsion, motive, whim, goad, desire, incentive, incitement, momentum, motivation, spur, 2. burst; synonyms (v) break, crack, blast, rupture, belch, abound, erupt, open, (n) flash, explosion, (adj) split, explode, detonate, flare, splinter; antonym (v) implode, 3. impact; synonyms (n) hit, shock, blow, clash, collision, crash, effect, impingement, impression, influence, touch, bang, (v) affect, contact, ram, 4. pulse; synonyms (n) beat, impulse, pulsation, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, pounding, cadence, measure, pulsing, (v) pulsate, throb, palpitate, pound, vibrate, 5. momentum; synonyms (n) pace, thrust, velocity, moment, power, propulsion, speed, progress; antonym (n) inertia.
- **imyHitet** immunity; *synonyms* (*n*) exemption, freedom, franchise, dispensation, privilege, exception, invulnerability, liberty, release, resistance, safety, security; *antonym* (*n*) vulnerability.
- **ІМУННИЙ** immune; *synonyms* (*adj*) exempt, free, impervious, resistant, sacred, secure, privileged, allowed, excused, favored, insubordinate, irresponsible, licensed, repellent, resistive.
- iM's name; synonyms (n) call, title, epithet, address, appellation, (v) appoint, baptize, describe, cite, designate, entitle, enumerate, identify, list, mention.
- iHakiie 1. otherwise; synonyms (adv) else, besides, differently, other, alias, elsewise, otherways, diversely, elseways, instead, variously, (adj) different, (conj) before,

- **2**. else; *synonyms* (*adv*) also, moreover, (*n*) threat, (*pron*) another, (*adj*) more, further, new, fresh.
- iHBEHTAP 1. inventory; synonyms (n) list, catalogue, index, stock, catalog, account, enumeration, roll, schedule, bill, table, inventorying, listing, record, stocktaking, 2. stock; synonyms (n) breed, lineage, store, goods, ancestry, descent, family, hoard, origin, race, backlog, birth, (adj) regular, (v) handle, supply.
- **інвентаризація** inventory; *synonyms* (*n*) list, catalogue, index, stock, catalog, account, enumeration, roll, schedule, bill, table, inventorying, listing, record, stocktaking.
- **інвестиція** investment; *synonyms* (*n*) investing, investiture, clothing, siege, finance, venture, backing, obsession, property, installation, outlay, capital, covering, accession, assets.
- iHBECTOP investor; synonyms (n) banker, capitalist, financier, speculator, backer, benefactor, client, entrepreneur, fan, saver, sponsor, supporter, tycoon, angel, collector.
- iHBECTYBATH invest; synonyms (v) install, clothe, empower, endow, adorn, commit, crown, dress, endue, enthrone, indue, vest, inaugurate, induct, intrust.
- **інгредієнт** ingredient; *synonyms* (n) constituent, component, element, factor, part.
- iHJEKC index; synonyms (n) catalogue, exponent, file, table, catalog, forefinger, roll, directory, subscript, enumeration, indication, indicator, indices, mark, (v) list.
- **індивідуальний** individual; **synonyms** (*adj*) distinct, particular, single, different, alone, certain, characteristic, distinctive, especial, exclusive, (*n*) human, creature, fellow, man, mortal; *antonyms* (*adj*) joint, combined, common, communal, general, vague, (*n*) collective.
- **індивідуальність 1**. identity; *synonyms* (*n*) identicalness, unity, individuality, personality, sameness, character, equality, person, similarity, equivalence, **2**. personality; *synonyms* (*n*) celebrity, identity, nature, characteristic, disposition, temperament, essence, individualism, name, being, distinctiveness, self, spirit, star, temper; *antonym* (*n*) nobody.
- індивідуально 1. individually; synonyms (adv) apart, independently, personally, alone, separately, severally, singly, particularly, peculiarly; antonym (adv) together, 2. particularly; synonyms (adv) especially, specially, only, chiefly, curiously, expressly, markedly, notably, principally, very, individually, definitely, distinctly, extremely, specifically; antonym (adv) slightly.
- **індик** turkey; *synonyms* (*n*) dud, failure, bomb, flop, joker, butt, coward, fiasco, fool, jokester, loser, luggage, misfire, (*adj*) imperfect, incapable.
- **індикатор** indicator; *synonyms* (*n*) gauge, index, indication, arrow, indicant, pointer, signpost, sign, signal, symbol.
- індиферентний indifferent; synonyms (adj) apathetic, callous, cold, cool, fair, impassive, insensible, unconcerned, careless, dull, average, aloof, casual, detached, disinterested; antonyms (adj) caring, enthusiastic, fervent, keen, obsessive, eager, energetic, involved, surprised.
- **індиферентність** indifference; *synonyms* (n) apathy, detachment, disregard, impassiveness, aloofness,

- disinterest, impassivity, neglect, neutrality, nonchalance, unconcern, stoicism, coolness, (adj) coldness, phlegm; **antonyms** (n) dedication, eagerness, fervor, interest, passion, compassion, favorite, sympathy.
- **індичка** turkey (індик); *synonyms* (*n*) dud, failure, bomb, flop, joker, butt, coward, fiasco, fool, jokester, loser, luggage, misfire, (*adj*) imperfect, incapable.
- iHAOCAMENT endorsement; synonyms (n) approbation, corroboration, confirmation, sanction, approval, authorization, countenance, permission, authority, verification, authentication, certificate, authorisation, agreement, backing.
- iHAYKUIS induction; synonyms (n) inauguration, deduction, initiation, beginning, elicitation, inductance, installation, introduction, presentation, analysis, calculation, consecration, dialectics, dissection, evocation.
- індустріальний industrial; synonyms (adj) technical, commercial, economic, manufactured, mechanical, business, capitalist, developed, entrepreneurial, occupational, professional, residential, scientific, technological, urban; antonym (adj) charitable.
- industry; synonyms (n) business, application, diligence, effort, industriousness, labor, toil, trade, work, assiduousness, exertion, manufacture, commerce.
- **ІНЕРЦІЯ** momentum; *synonyms* (*n*) impetus, impulse, force, drive, impulsion, pace, thrust, velocity, moment, power, propulsion, speed, progress; *antonym* (*n*) inertia.
- **ін'єкція** injection; *synonyms* (n) shot, clyster, enema, inoculation, jab, vaccination, injectant, medicine.
- **İHжeнep** engineer; *synonyms* (n) architect, mastermind, machinist, (v) devise, conduct, contrive, direct, organize, plan, construct, finagle, fix, guide, hatch, manage.
- **інжир** fig; *synonyms* (*n*) figure, anatomy, bod, build, chassis, design, digit, foutra, flesh, image, name, number, (*adi*) pin, straw, rush.
- **initiatuba** initiative; *synonyms* (n) enterprise, gumption, opening, ambition, energy, drive, inventiveness, creativity, originality, enterprisingness, (*adj*) initial, inaugural, initiatory, incipient, first.
- **ініціативний** pushing; *synonyms* (*v*) meddlesome, (*adj*) aggressive, enterprising, pushful, pushy, ambitious, forward, (*n*) push, promotion.
- iHiцiaTop author (aBTop); synonyms (n) writer, architect, creator, founder, inventor, originator, parent, producer, father, generator, maker, dramatist, (v) compose, create, write
- iHKacaTop runner; synonyms (n) courier, contrabandist, messenger, offset, sprinter, offshoot, contestant, smuggler, stolon, candidate, carpet, flume, ingate, mooncurser.
- iнкасувати cash; synonyms (n) ready, bread, capital, change, funds, money, coin, coins, currency, exchange, means, needful, wealth, (v) encash, liquidate; antonym (n) credit.
- **інколи** sometimes; *synonyms* (*adv*) occasionally, once, formerly, sometime, seldom, periodically, off-and-on, otherwhiles, usually, consistently, constantly, (*n*) exemplar, meantime, meanwhile, (*adj*) former.
- **ihkyбатор** nursery; *synonyms* (n) kindergarten, greenhouse, cradle, seminary, nest, glasshouse, puberty,

- pucelage, pupilage, reformatory, schoolroom, womb, childhood, playgroup, seminarist.
- inoдi 1. sometimes; synonyms (adv) occasionally, once, formerly, sometime, seldom, periodically, off-and-on, otherwhiles, usually, consistently, constantly, (n) exemplar, meantime, meanwhile, (adj) former, 2. occasionally; synonyms (adv) sometimes, irregularly, infrequently, uncommonly; antonyms (adv) frequently, regularly.
- iноземець alien; *synonyms* (*adj*) foreign, strange, unknown, extrinsic, exotic, extraneous, remote, unfamiliar, unusual, (*n*) foreigner, outsider, stranger, emigrant, (*v*) alienate, estrange; *antonyms* (*adj*) familiar, (*n*) native, citizen.
- iноземний 1. alien; synonyms (adj) foreign, strange, unknown, extrinsic, exotic, extraneous, remote, unfamiliar, unusual, (n) foreigner, outsider, stranger, emigrant, (v) alienate, estrange; antonyms (adj) familiar, (n) native, citizen, 2. external; synonyms (adj) exterior, outside, outward, outlying, peripheral, superficial, formal, objective, outdoor, outer, surface; antonyms (adj) inner, interior, internal, domestic, inmost, inside, 3. foreign; synonyms (adj) alien, external, oversea, adventitious, outlandish, peregrine, different, imported, irrelevant, tramontane.
- **ihenektop 1**. inspector; *synonyms* (n) examiner, supervisor, auditor, controller, investigator, superintendent, assessor, director, manager, overseer, reviewer, surveyor, visitor, administrator, husband, **2**. Visitor; *synonyms* (n) guest, company, tourist, visitant, traveler, inspector, stranger, foreigner, alien, sightseer, arrival, supercargo.
- **інспектування 1**. inspection; *synonyms* (*n*) examination, check, review, surveillance, exploration, inquiry, scrutiny, search, study, survey, investigation, observation, oversight, sight, (*v*) inspect, **2**. survey; *synonyms* (*n*) poll, measurement, inspection, digest, look, (*v*) measure, view, appraise, canvass, prospect, assess, observe, evaluate, examine, overlook; *antonym* (*v*) neglect.
- **інспектувати** inspect; *synonyms* (v) examine, overhaul, overlook, survey, explore, inquire, look, review, scrutinize, view, watch, monitor, analyze, audit, check.
- **інспекція** inspection; *synonyms* (n) examination, check, review, surveillance, exploration, inquiry, scrutiny, search, study, survey, investigation, observation, oversight, sight, (v) inspect.
- **ihctuhkt** instinct; *synonyms* (n) intuition, impulse, aptitude, urge, gift, feeling.
- iнстинктивно instinctively; synonyms (adv) involuntarily, naturally, automatically, blindly, impulsively, individually, inherently, mechanically, personally, spontaneously, unconsciously, artlessly, essentially, insentience, intrinsically; antonym (adv) deliberately.
- **inctutyt** institute; *synonyms* (*n*) academy, (*v*) establish, found, build, constitute, appoint, form, fix, begin, bring, create, erect, initiate, base, (*adj*) enact.
- **incrpykta** instruction; *synonyms* (n) charge, command, advice, counsel, direction, education,

- guidance, guideline, information, injunction, prescription, teaching, bidding, commission, doctrine.
- incrpyktop 1. instructor; synonyms (n) teacher, coach, trainer, educator, preceptor, tutor, lecturer, master, mentor, institutor, 2. trainer; synonyms (n) instructor, professor, cavalier, don, equestrian, horseman, jockey, rider, roughrider, (v) preparer.
- **інструкції** instructions; *synonyms* (*n*) direction, injunction, charge, orders, guide, will, formula, guidelines, handbook, message, briefing, method, mission, preparation, procedure.
- **ihctpykuis** instruction; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, command, advice, counsel, direction, education, guidance, guideline, information, injunction, prescription, teaching, bidding, commission, doctrine.
- iHCTPYMEHT 1. tool; synonyms (n) instrument, implement, machine, puppet, pawn, device, gadget, apparatus, appliance, cock, contrivance, creature, agent, medium, (ν) drive, 2. instrument; synonyms (n) channel, deed, agency, document, expedient, tool, gear, engine, means, intermediary, mechanism, muniment, organ, way, (ν) utensil, 3. apparatus (απαρατ); synonyms (n) plant, tackle, equipment, machinery, outfit, rig, rigging, setup, tools, 4. outfit; synonyms (n) dress, garb, kit, apparel, clothing, company, costume, ensemble, pack, clothes, group, (ν) attire, equip, fit, furnish.
- **інструментальний** instrumental; *synonyms* (*adj*) conducive, helpful, implemental, useful, lyric, operatic, vocal, subservient, influential, profitable, inservient, instrumentary, organic, usable, active.
- **IHCILEHYBATH** stage; *synonyms* (*n*) grade, phase, floor, degree, level, period, point, arena, layer, chapter, leg, gradation, (*v*) present, order, mount.
- iHTEFPAA integral; synonyms (adj) complete, entire, inherent, full, constitutional, inbuilt, intact, total, constituent, all, integrant, organic, perfect, (n) whole, differential.
- **інтегральний** integral; *synonyms* (*adj*) complete, entire, inherent, full, constitutional, inbuilt, intact, total, constituent, all, integrant, organic, perfect, (*n*) whole, differential.
- iHTEFPALIS integration; synonyms (n) amalgamation, consolidation, embodiment, integrating, merger, fusion, synthesis, desegregation, (v) addition; antonym (n) segregation.
- **інтегрований** integrated; *synonyms* (*adj*) amalgamated, incorporated, combined, united, unified, entire, fused, merged, mixed, incorporate.
- iHTEFPYBATU integrate; synonyms (v) incorporate, blend, combine, consolidate, fuse, amalgamate, embody, merge, unify, unite, join, mix, coalesce, commingle, desegregate; antonyms (v) separate, exclude, segregate.
- iнтелект 1. intelligence; synonyms (n) information, cleverness, intellect, news, tidings, understanding, acumen, brain, brains, capacity, comprehension, knowledge, mentality, notice, sharpness; antonyms (n) stupidity, emotion, 2. mind (розум); synonyms (n) head, inclination, intelligence, psyche, regard, conscience, belief, (v) care, look, attend, beware, keep, listen, guard, (adj) heed; antonym (v) forget.

- **інтелектуальний** intellectual; *synonyms* (*adj*) cerebral, mental, rational, learned, spiritual, academic, ideal, cultured, brilliant, clever, (*n*) intellect, brain, scholar, thinker, mind.
- iHTE.nireHT intellectual; synonyms (adj) cerebral, mental, rational, learned, spiritual, academic, ideal, cultured, brilliant, clever, (n) intellect, brain, scholar, thinker, mind
- **інтенсивний 1**. intense; *synonyms* (*adj*) bright, acute, ardent, brilliant, deep, fervent, fierce, burning, energetic, extreme, fiery, furious, heated, rich, (*v*) vivid; *antonyms* (*adj*) mild, calm, dull, weak, imperceptible, slight, **2**. intensive; *synonyms* (*adj*) intense, concentrated, thorough, exhaustive, augmentative, ascensive, intensitive, all-out, assiduous, demanding, determined, harsh, in-depth, intent, (*n*) intensifier; *antonym* (*adj*) extensive.
- **ihtehcubhicts** intensity; *synonyms* (n) force, forcefulness, depth, volume, fierceness, emphasis, energy, ferocity, forte, fury, glow, might, passion, power, (adj) strength; *antonyms* (n) dullness, indifference, weakness.
- iHTepBa

  interval; synonyms (n) intermission, interruption, break, distance, interlude, hiatus, gap, interim, pause, period, respite, span, length, cessation, rest.
- **інтервенція** intervention; *synonyms* (*n*) intercession, interference, intermediation, intervene, arbitration, hindrance, intermission, (*adj*) mediation, interposition.
- **interpb** in interview; *synonyms* (n) conference, consultation, audience, conversation, hearing, examination, appointment, discussion, meeting, parley, (v) question, interrogate, talk, encounter.
- **ihtepb'hobath** interview; *synonyms* (n) conference, consultation, audience, conversation, hearing, examination, appointment, discussion, meeting, parley, (v) question, interrogate, talk, encounter.
- intrepec 1. interest; synonyms (n) concern, advantage, affair, account, gain, hobby, behalf, eagerness, enthusiasm, sake, (v) engage, care, benefit, appeal, affect; antonyms (n) indifference, apathy, (v) bore, 2. concern; synonyms (n) business, regard, attention, anxiety, bother, matter, company, apprehension, burden, disquiet, fear, firm, (v) worry, interest, trouble; antonym (v) unconcern.
- **інтернаціональний** international; *synonyms* (*adj*) worldwide, global, intercontinental, universal, external, away, broad, comprehensive, extensive, extraneous, important, major, outside, significant, sweeping; *antonyms* (*adj*) national, insular, local.
- ihteppperauis interpretation; synonyms (n) version, construction, explanation, exposition, clarification, commentary, illustration, definition, interpreting, translation, analysis, description, performance, reading, understanding.
- **інтерпретувати** interpret; *synonyms* (*v*) clarify, construe, elucidate, illustrate, read, understand, comment, gloss, decipher, explain, explicate, render, depict, illuminate, consider.
- **інтерфейс** interface; *synonyms* (n) link, port, boundary, junction, border, circumference, communication,

- display, (v) contact, combine, connect, merge, amalgamate, collaborate, communicate.
- **інтимний** intimate; *synonyms* (*adj*) close, confidential, informal, inner, internal, bosom, (*v*) express, allude, hint, imply, indicate, insinuate, suggest, (*n*) familiar, (*adv*) dear; *antonym* (*adj*) distant.
- **İHTHMHİCTL** intimacy; *synonyms* (n) familiarity, acquaintance, closeness, fellowship, association, friendship, intercourse, affair, camaraderie, conversance, affaire, amour, liaison.
- iHTyïцiя insight; synonyms (n) discernment, vision, acumen, penetration, perception, understanding, brainwave, apprehension, acquaintance, idea, knowledge, acuteness, appreciation, clairvoyance, foresight.
- **інфекція** infection; *synonyms* (*n*) contagion, disease, contamination, taint, corruption, septicity, illness, inspiration, transmission, virus, bug, galvanism, (*adj*) pollution.
- **інфінітив** infinitive; *synonym* (n) undefined.
- **інфляція** inflation; *synonyms* (n) expansion, dilatation, increase, rise, boom, subtilization, appreciation, accumulation, augmentation, bombast, conceit, depression, euphemism, exaggeration, (adj) pretension; antonym (n) deflation.
- **інформаційний** informative; *synonyms* (*adj*) educational, enlightening, illuminating, instructive, edifying, informatory, explanatory, expository.
- IHΦOPMAIIIЯ 1. information; synonyms (n) advice, communication, data, evidence, note, enlightenment, report, tidings, complaint, counsel, info, instruction, intelligence, material, warning, 2. data; synonyms (n) information, facts, details, fact, figures, file, postulate, proof, 3. light; synonyms (adj) fair, clear, facile, easy, faint, flimsy, (n) flame, brightness, daylight, (v) fire, kindle, inflame, glow, ignite, dismount; antonyms (adj) fattening, nauseating, (n) dark, darkness, gloom, shade, night, (v) extinguish, darken, (alt sp) heavy, 4. intelligence; synonyms (n) cleverness, intellect, news, understanding, acumen, brain, brains, capacity, comprehension, knowledge, mentality, notice, sharpness, wisdom, wit; antonyms (n) stupidity, emotion.
- **інформувати** inform; *synonyms* (*v*) communicate, acquaint, advise, impart, announce, enlighten, tell, familiarize, explain, advertise, apprise, educate, instruct, state warm
- **iнφpacrpyκτypa** infrastructure; *synonyms* (n) base, foundation, basis, groundwork, substructure, alkali, bag, cornerstone, fabric, floor, foot, footing, fundament, grounds, home.
- **інцидент** incident; *synonyms* (n) event, fact, adventure, case, circumstance, episode, experience, happening, instance, occasion, occurrence, affair, contingency, (adj) attendant, concomitant.
- **інший 1**. other; *synonyms* (*adj*) additional, another, different, extra, further, more, new, second, distinct, dissimilar, fresh, else, opposite, added; *antonym* (*adj*) same, **2**. different; *synonyms* (*adj*) assorted, unusual, various, alien, alternative, discrete, diverse, foreign, miscellaneous, separate, several, strange, unlike, mixed, discrepant; *antonyms* (*adj*) similar, corresponding, equal,

- identical, like, typical, **3**. diverse; *synonyms* (*adj*) divers, disparate, variant, divergent, sundry, varied, heterogeneous, manifold, multiple, other, numerous; *antonym* (*adj*) homogeneous, **4**. else; *synonyms* (*adv*) besides, also, moreover, (*n*) threat.
- IHOTEKA mortgage; synonyms (n) gage, plight, warranty, credit, loan, (v) bond, pawn, pledge, impawn.
- ipuc iris; synonyms (n) diaphragm, flag, pupil, rainbow, comet, peacock, tulip, white, ensign, flagstone, gladiola, gladiolus, retina, spectrum, sunbow.
- **іронічний** ironic; *synonyms* (*adj*) wry, sarcastic, cynical, ironical, mocking, sardonic, satirical, dry.
- iponis irony; synonyms (n) sarcasm, ridicule, banter, humor, raillery, derision, mockery, quiz, (adj) satire, burlesque; antonym (n) exaggeration.
- **ickpa** arc; *synonyms* (*n*) arch, bow, bend, crescent, curvature, spark, sweep, (*v*) curve.
- ichyвання 1. being; synonyms (n) existence, person, animal, human, entity, essence, presence, matter, creature, individual, life, mortal, man, nature, (adj) present; antonyms (n) death, nonexistence, 2. existence; synonyms (n) being, living, subsistence, lifetime, occurrence, reality, time, world, beingness, cosmos, creation; antonym (n) nonbeing, 3. essence; synonyms (n) core, aroma, crux, gist, perfume, hypostasis, body, burden, extract, fragrance, heart, kernel, nub, odor, root, 4. life (життя); synonyms (n) animation, energy, spirit, activity, biography, dash, enthusiasm, exuberance, live, briskness, career, autobiography, endurance, liveliness, survival; antonym (n) lethargy.
- ichybath 1. exist; synonyms (v) dwell, lie, be, endure, abide, consist, belong, continue, live, occur, subsist, survive, hold, remain; antonym (v) die, 2. be; synonyms (v) exist, act, constitute, represent, cost, follow, form, rest, stay, comprise, signify, embody, (n) stand, beryllium, agree, 3. breathe (дихати); synonyms (v) blow, exhale, emit, imply, whisper, inspire, convey, heave, huff, puff, utter, (n) respire, bespeak, argue, 4. obtain; synonyms (v) gain, acquire, get, have, achieve, attain, earn, accomplish, derive, effect, buy, collect, extract, find, gather; antonym (v) lose, 5. live (жити, мешкати); synonyms (v) inhabit, reside, experience, last, lodge, (adj) alive, active, animate, living, brisk, bouncy, breathing, hot, lively, (n) go; antonyms (adj) dead, inanimate.
- ICHУЮЧИЙ living; synonyms (adj) lively, alive, live, extant, active, animated, animate, fresh, quick, (n) livelihood, being, life, aliveness, animation, benefice; antonyms (adj) inanimate, (n) dead, death.
- **ICTION 1**. exam; *synonyms* (*n*) test, examination, quiz, assessment, challenge, examen, interrogation, run, **2**. probation; *synonyms* (*n*) trial, verification, discharge, freedom, (*adj*) apodeixis, apodixis.
- ictuна 1. truth; synonyms (n) exactness, reality, actuality, sincerity, correctness, fact, fidelity, verity, genuineness, accuracy, certainty, faithfulness, honesty, precision, authenticity; antonyms (n) untruth, dishonesty, fabrication, falsehood, fiction, lie, 2. fact; synonyms (n) event, incident, detail, deed, particular, truth,

- circumstance, experience, occurrence, point, thing, contingency, affair, case, (v) act; **antonyms** (n) guesswork, rumor, conjecture, fallacy, report.
- icтинний 1. genuine; synonyms (adj) actual, authentic, sincere, true, unsophisticated, candid, faithful, artless, factual, hearty, real, unaffected, unfeigned, very, absolute; antonyms (adj) bogus, fake, insincere, affected, artificial, dishonest, false, pretend, hypocritical, replica, 2. real; synonyms (adj) genuine, material, physical, concrete, literal, natural, positive, pure, native, right, good, certain, honest, just, substantial; antonyms (adj) unreal, imaginary, apparent, deceptive, fantasy, imitation, insubstantial, mock, nominal, 3. true; synonyms (adj) even, accurate, correct, exact, straight, truthful, direct, loyal, precise, proper, reliable, veritable, rightful, sound, (v) square; antonyms (adj) inaccurate, untrue.
- **істинність** reality; *synonyms* (n) fact, existence, actuality, certainty, realism, being, realness, truth, entity, genuineness, loyalty, positive, substance, (v) deed, efficiency; *antonyms* (n) fantasy, delusion, dream, imagination, vision.
- **icTopuκ** historian; *synonyms* (*n*) chronicler, historiographer, historier, storier.
- icторичний 1. historic; synonyms (adj) important, momentous, historical, monumental, significant, past, traditional, aged, ancient, auspicious, breakthrough, critical, crucial, diachronic, eventful; antonym (adj) insignificant, 2. historical; synonyms (adj) historic, chronological, genetic, historial, local, narrative, storial, actual, archival, attested, authentic, bygone, chronicled, classical, commemorated.
- **ictopis 1.** history; *synonyms* (n) account, chronicle, story, annals, background, narrative, record, explanation, yesteryear, narration, past, life, (v) tale; *antonym* (n) present, **2.** story; *synonyms* (n) layer, history, recital, report, fable, falsehood, fib, floor, legend, level, novel, stage, storey, article, description; *antonym* (n) truth.
- ictota being; synonyms (n) existence, person, animal, human, entity, essence, presence, matter, creature, individual, life, mortal, man, nature, (adj) present; antonyms (n) death, nonexistence.
- ictothuй 1. essential; synonyms (adj) necessary, crucial, important, inherent, requisite, constituent, basic, elementary, fundamental, natural, central, constitutional, (n) necessity, base, (v) imperative; antonyms (adj) minor, secondary, (n) inessential, optional, option, unimportant, peripheral, luxury, 2. substantial; synonyms (adj) actual, solid, firm, real, strong, considerable, palpable, significant, essential, momentous, sturdy, sound, concrete, ample, big; antonyms (adj) insignificant, insubstantial, small, ethereal, fine, worthless, 3. significant; synonyms (adj) material, grave, meaningful, serious, critical, emphatic, expressive, indicative, major, pregnant, relevant, substantial, meaning, solemn, (v) influential; antonym (adj) trivial.
- iTu 1. go; synonyms (v) come, elapse, pass, break, crack, depart, disappear, drive, run, travel, fall, extend, function, (n) fare, (adj) follow, 2. walk (ходити); synonyms (v) ramble, course, hike, move, roam, trek, go,

promenade, (n) step, gait, pace, path, saunter, stroll, excursion

## Ϊ

- ïда food (ïжа); *synonyms* (n) board, edible, fare, aliment, diet, dish, nourishment, sustenance, eating, fodder, meat, nurture, nutriment, nutrition, pabulum.
- ÏДАЛЬНЯ 1. canteen; synonyms (n) flask, bottle, estaminet, posada, cafeteria, hall, amphora, bar, barrel, butt, caldron, carboy, cask, container, crock, 2. mess; synonyms (n) clutter, jumble, muddle, confusion, difficulty, disorder, hodgepodge, jam, scrape, bedlam, chaos, dilemma, dirt, (v) botch, soil; antonym (n) order.
- **їжа 1.** food; *synonyms* (*n*) board, edible, fare, aliment, diet, dish, nourishment, sustenance, eating, fodder, meat, nurture, nutriment, nutrition, pabulum, **2.** feed; *synonyms* (*v*) eat, dine, browse, encourage, nourish, fatten, consume, feast, fertilize, foster, grub, nurse, (*n*) food, provender, meal; *antonym* (*v*) starve, **3.** meal; *synonyms* (*n*) feed, flour, repast, banquet, spread, bite.
- T3Ja 1. drive; synonyms (n) ride, force, campaign, crusade, thrust, cause, ambition, (v) push, actuate, chase, compel, urge, coerce, beat, carry; antonyms (n) apathy, inertia, 2. riding; synonyms (v) horsemanship, (adj) awheel, (n) equitation, travel, hundred, soke, tithing, snowboarding.
- **ТЗДИТИ 1.** drive; *synonyms* (*n*) ride, force, campaign, crusade, thrust, cause, ambition, (*v*) push, actuate, chase, compel, urge, coerce, beat, carry; *antonyms* (*n*) apathy, inertia, **2.** travel; *synonyms* (*n*) journey, pass, stroke, passage, tour, voyage, (*v*) go, run, proceed, move, roam, cruise, ramble, sail, (*adi*) course.
- **їсти 1**. eat; *synonyms* (*v*) devour, consume, bite, dine, munch, corrode, deplete, drink, feed, finish, gnaw, gobble, gorge, graze, (*adj*) digest, **2**. meal; *synonyms* (*n*) food, flour, repast, banquet, spread.
- **TXATU 1.** ride; *synonyms* (*n*) outing, run, lift, jaunt, voyage, (*v*) drive, bait, float, mount, rag, tease, harass, annoy, drift, (*adj*) bestride, **2**. go; *synonyms* (*v*) come, elapse, pass, break, crack, depart, disappear, travel, fall, extend, function, operate, (*n*) fare, (*adj*) follow, move.

## Й

- **Ŭ** and; *synonyms* (*conj*) with, (*adv*) also, additionally, (*prep*) plus, including, (*adj*) more.
- ÖMOBIPHICTЬ 1. probability; synonyms (n) chance, likelihood, odds, possibility, likeliness, opportunity, expectation, eventuality, prospect, contingency, expectancy, danger, outlook, chances, verisimilitude, 2. likelihood; synonyms (n) probability, appearance, option, plausibility; antonyms (n) unlikelihood, improbability.

## K

- кабель cable; synonyms (n) rope, line, cablegram, telegram, cord, guy, ribbon, twine, (v) wire, telegraph, report
- KABIHA 1. cabin; synonyms (n) booth, hut, chamber, cot, lodge, room, shed, stall, apartment, 2. cage; synonyms (n) jail, pen, hutch, cell, corral, crate, frame, gaol, enclosure, (v) confine, enclose, imprison, incarcerate; antonym (v) free.
- **Ka6ihet 1.** cabinet; synonyms (n) case, closet, locker, press, cupboard, chamber, console, sideboard, board, council, 2. office; synonyms (n) charge, agency, duty, function, position, commission, appointment, division, authority, berth, bureau, job, part, place, post.
- каблук heel; *synonyms* (*n*) blackguard, counter, dog, cad, scoundrel, shoe, sole, villain, bounder, (*v*) list, lean.
- КАБЛУЧКА ring (кільце); synonyms (n) encircle, band, gang, jingle, loop, rim, circuit, annulus, (v) circle, call, peal, echo, resound, reverberate, gird.
- кабріолет 1. gig; *synonyms* (*n*) fizgig, performance, shallop, spear, concert, engagement, fishgig, cart, kedge, lerret, punt, scow, wherry, labor, work, 2. cab; *synonyms* (*n*) cabriolet, taxi, taxicab, car, fly, hack, droshki, drosky, growler, vehicle, omnibus, drudge, hacker, jade, nag.
- кава coffee; *synonyms* (*n*) brown, chocolate, cocoa, beige, tan, umber, (*adj*) auburn, brunette, russet.
- кавалерія cavalry; synonyms (n) horse, hussar, uhlan, voltigeur, army, buck, chivalry, bowlegs, chasseurs, cuirassiers, diacetylmorphine, dragoons, exploit, heroin, hobby.
- кажан bat; synonyms (n) club, rapidity, blow, cudgel, flittermouse, punch, stick, (v) hit, beat, blink, lick, slam, thrash, flutter.
- **KA3AH** boiler; *synonyms* (n) kettle, furnace, heater, banality, evaporator, seether, cistern, container, kettleful, kiln, oven, reservoir, timpani, tympani, tympanum.
- **Κα3αΤυ** Say; *synonyms* (*v*) remark, articulate, express, pronounce, assert, enunciate, observe, maintain, order, read, speak, state, tell, (*n*) declare, voice.
- **KA3KA 1**. story; *synonyms* (*n*) layer, history, account, narration, narrative, recital, report, tale, fable, falsehood, fib, floor, legend, level, novel; *antonym* (*n*) truth, **2**. tale; *synonyms* (*n*) story, fiction, lie, relation, yarn, gossip, romance, anecdote, fabrication, myth, invention, rumor, saga, explanation, chronicle.
- **KA3KU** tale; *synonyms* (n) story, account, narrative, fable, fib, narration, recital, report, fiction, history, legend, lie, relation, yarn, gossip.
- **КАЗКОВИЙ** fairy; *synonyms* (n) elf, faerie, sprite, fag, faggot, fagot, imp, pixie, fay, goblin, nymph, pansy, poof, poove, (adj) faery.
- **казна 1**. treasury; *synonyms* (n) exchequer, storehouse, thesaurus, anthology, bank, mine, store, chest, coffer, purse, repertory, safe, magazine, strongbox, agriculture,

- 2. chest; *synonyms* (*n*) bosom, bust, box, bureau, case, casket, dresser, chamber, crate, thorax, treasury, trunk, 3. exchequer; *synonym* (*n*) hanaper.
- **KA3HAЧЕЙСТВО 1.** exchequer; *synonyms* (*n*) treasury, bank, purse, hanaper, **2.** treasury; *synonyms* (*n*) exchequer, storehouse, thesaurus, anthology, mine, store, chest, coffer, repertory, safe, magazine, strongbox, agriculture, cache, casket.
- календар calendar; *synonyms* (n) almanac, agenda, schedule, diary, journal, program, timetable, (v) list.
- KAJII6P 1. gauge; *synonyms* (n) criterion, caliber, gage, calibre, (v) estimate, measure, calculate, assess, compute, fathom, make, reckon, forecast, scale, appraise, 2. size; *synonyms* (n) bulk, capacity, dimension, dimensions, extent, largeness, quantity, glue, amount, breadth, degree, magnitude, mass, measurement, (v) gauge; *antonyms* (n) length, slenderness.
- **KAJIbKYJHOBATU** calculate; *synonyms* (*v*) count, estimate, account, add, appraise, cipher, compute, deem, enumerate, forecast, gauge, guess, make, reckon, consider.
- KAJIKYJIHHI calculation; synonyms (n) reckoning, account, analysis, arithmetic, computation, deliberation, discretion, estimate, forecast, anticipation, projection, count, expectation, (v) estimation, (adj) circumspection.
- **KAJIbCOHU** drawers; *synonyms* (n) knickers, pants, shorts, tights, bloomers, breeches, underwear, calzoons, boxers, knickerbockers, trunks, unmentionables.
- **калюжа** pool; *synonyms* (n) plash, lake, pond, mere, cartel, basin, kitty, syndicate, trust, billiards, lough, store, (v) combine, merge, associate.
- **KAMEHAP** mason; *synonyms* (*n*) builder, freemason, stonemason, architect, artificer, artist, maker, manufacturer, smith, carpenter.
- **каменярня** quarry; *synonyms* (*n*) mine, prey, game, dig, pit, target, victim, butt, excavation, fund, lode, objective, (*y*) excavate.
- **KAMEPA 1.** camera, **2.** cell; *synonyms* (*n*) cage, jail, cadre, hole, cave, booth, chamber, compartment, coop, cubicle, den, lair, recess, **3.** cabinet; *synonyms* (*n*) case, closet, locker, press, cupboard, console, sideboard, board, council.
- **Kameprep** chamberlain; *synonyms* (n) bailiff, seneschal, castellan.
- **KAMIH** fireplace; *synonyms* (n) chimney, fire, hearth, fireside, ingle, barbecue, blaze, favourite, flame, paramour, sweetheart.
- **камінь 1**. stone; *synonyms* (*n*) jewel, rock, calculus, gem, pebble, concretion, gemstone, kernel, bullet, granite, (*v*) pit, lapidate, pelt, cake, clot, **2**. rock; *synonyms* (*n*) boulder, pillar, (*v*) jar, sway, cradle, jolt, shake, toss, waver, quake, pitch, reel, roll, swing, (*adj*) stone.
- кампанія campaign; synonyms (n) crusade, battle, expedition, movement, struggle, war, cause, drive, effort, (v) fight, course, canvass, run, advertize, agitate.
- **KAMПУC** campus; *synonyms* (n) grounds, college, penitentiary, prison, academia.

- **КАМ'ЯНИЙ** stone; *synonyms* (*n*) jewel, rock, calculus, gem, pebble, concretion, gemstone, kernel, bullet, granite, (*v*) pit, lapidate, pelt, cake, clot.
- KAHABA 1. ditch; synonyms (n) trench, canal, channel, dike, drain, gutter, (v) abandon, chuck, desert, discard, dump, moat, cut, leave, scrap; antonym (v) keep, 2. trench; synonyms (n) ditch, furrow, groove, hollow, dugout, foxhole, sewer, deep, trough, (v) encroach, excavate, infringe, entrench, impinge.
- канавка slot; *synonyms* (*n*) groove, place, notch, gap, opening, position, aperture, cut, split, section, class, nick, partition, (*v*) slit, rank.
- **канал 1.** canal; *synonyms* (*n*) aqueduct, channel, conduit, duct, sound, adit, culvert, trench, ditch, groove, passage, pipe, stream, trough, (*v*) canalize, **2.** channel; *synonyms* (*n*) canal, drain, line, waterway, link, hollow, agent, avenue, furrow, (*v*) carry, conduct, convey, bring, funnel, gutter.
- KAHAJII3ALII 1. drainage; synonyms (n) drain, drive, emanation, tapping, hydrography, (adj) arefaction, dephlegmation, 2. sewage; synonyms (n) sewerage, sullage, dirt, filth, cloaca, garbage, manure, residue, mess, overflow, runoff, seepage, silt.
- **KAHAIIA** sofa; *synonyms* (*n*) couch, lounge, bench, chair, form, stall, stool, bed, futon.
- **KAHAT 1.** rope; *synonyms* (*n*) cable, lasso, lariat, noose, cord, hawser, leash, line, string, tape, lace, tether, thread, (*v*) tie, bind, **2**. cable; *synonyms* (*n*) rope, cablegram, telegram, guy, ribbon, twine, (*v*) wire, telegraph, report.
- кандидат 1. candidate; *synonyms* (*n*) applicant, aspirant, contestant, contender, hopeful, nominee, prospect, suitor, amateur, campaigner, 2. applicant; *synonyms* (*n*) petitioner, candidate, applier, solicitor.
- **KAHICTPA** can; *synonyms* (v) tin, dismiss, fire, might, pickle, pot, sack, (n) bathroom, behind, buttocks, container, lavatory, posterior, rump, jar; *antonym* (v) hire
- **KAHOH** canon; *synonyms* (n) rule, doctrine, law, principle, regulation, code, criterion, formula, statute, creed, prebendary.
- канцелярія office; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, agency, duty, function, position, commission, appointment, division, authority, berth, bureau, job, part, place, post.
- **КАНЦЕЛЯРСЬКИЙ** clerical; *synonyms* (*adj*) accounting, bookkeeping, theocratic, administrative, church, directorial, managerial, organizational, parsonical, pious, religious, apostolic, assistant, (*n*) minister, preacher.
- канцлер chancellor; *synonyms* (*n*) premier, consul, lieutenant, magistrate, proconsul, syndic, judge, justice, official, prefect.
- **капелюх** hat; *synonyms* (*n*) cap, chapeau, lid, sou'wester, bonus, eyelid, palpebra, (*adj*) hot.
- KAHITAJI 1. capital; synonyms (n) principal, city, stock, assets, cash, funds, means, money, paramount, prime, resources, (adj) main, primary, chief, great, 2. fund; synonyms (n) store, capital, bank, reserve, savings, supply, cache, endowment, accumulation, (v) hoard, bankroll, finance, accumulate, back, sponsor, 3. principal; synonyms (adj) master, cardinal, leading,

- grand, first, foremost, central, essential, fundamental, important, (n) head, leader, manager, corpus, general; **antonym** (adj) minor.
- капіталізм capitalism; *synonyms* (*n*) democracy, commercialism, competition, entrepreneurship, industrialism, mercantilism; *antonyms* (*n*) collectivism, communism, socialism.
- **Kanita**.nict capitalist; *synonyms* (*adj*) capitalistic, commercial, consumer, (*n*) financier, banker, businessman, businessperson, businesswoman, employer, entrepreneur, magnate, manufacturer, tycoon, backer, boss; *antonym* (*adj*) collective.
- **КАПІТАЛІСТИЧНИЙ** capitalist; *synonyms* (*adj*) capitalistic, commercial, consumer, (*n*) financier, banker, businessman, businessperson, businesswoman, employer, entrepreneur, magnate, manufacturer, tycoon, backer, boss; *antonym* (*adj*) collective.
- **KAIITAJOBKJIAJEHHЯ** investment; *synonyms* (n) investing, investiture, clothing, siege, finance, venture, backing, obsession, property, installation, outlay, capital, covering, accession, assets.
- **КАПІТАЛЬНИЙ** capital; *synonyms* (*n*) principal, city, stock, assets, cash, funds, means, money, paramount, prime, resources, (*adj*) main, primary, chief, great.
- **капітан** captain; *synonyms* (*n*) chief, head, leader, master, boss, chieftain, commander, commodore, guide, officer, pilot, skipper, ruler, (*v*) govern, manage.
- **KAIIITYJI** chapter; *synonyms* (n) episode, branch, article, convocation, head, part, section, stage, caput, installment.
- капкан trap; synonyms (n) snare, net, ambush, gin, mesh, noose, entanglement, ambuscade, bait, (v) catch, entrap, ensnare, trick, entangle, capture.
- **каплиця** chapel; *synonyms* (*n*) church, worship, kirk, shrine, temple, cathedral, kapelle, minster, basilica, conventicle, (*v*) enshrine.
- **KAIIPH3** fantasy; *synonyms* (n) dream, fancy, illusion, delusion, mirage, desire, fad, fiction, hallucination, invention, reverie, vision, imaginativeness, deception, (adj) make-believe; antonyms (n) reality, (adj) real.
- **KAΠΤΥΡ** cap; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (*ν*) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.
- капюшон 1. hood; *synonyms* (*n*) cap, bonnet, cowl, cover, hat, coif, headdress, hoodlum, thug, malefactor, gangster, helmet, hooligan, punk, cowling, **2**. cape; *synonyms* (*n*) cloak, headland, ness, shawl, coat, mantle, point, promontory.
- Kapa 1. punishment; synonyms (n) discipline, correction, penalty, penance, chastisement, fine, rebuke, retribution, reward, execution, judgment, retaliation, payment, reprimand, revenge, 2. penalty; synonyms (n) mulct, forfeit, forfeiture, amercement, handicap, penalization, sentence, pain, conviction, punishment, sanction, (v) condemnation, 3. judgement; synonyms (n) discretion, assessment, discernment, opinion, belief, judging, mind, perspicacity, sagacity.
- **караван 1**. caravan; *synonyms* (*n*) train, carriage, van, column, conveyance, expedition, journey, parade, party, vehicle, camels, (*v*) procession, cortege, file, cavalcade, **2**. train; *synonyms* (*n*) chain, string, (*v*) aim, coach,

- direct, educate, exercise, trail, tail, tame, discipline, drill, instruct, prepare, school.
- **карбувати** coin; *synonyms* (*n*) cash, money, specie, currency, piece, (*v*) forge, invent, mint, originate, create, strike, cast, devise, fabricate, weave.
- **карета** coach; *synonyms* (*n*) trainer, tutor, instructor, teacher, autobus, bus, carriage, charabanc, stagecoach, cart, (*v*) train, educate, groom, instruct, (*adj*) prime.
- **KAPETKA** carriage; *synonyms* (*n*) attitude, transport, behavior, conveyance, air, coach, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, (*v*) bearing.
- **καp'εp** quarry; *synonyms* (n) mine, prey, game, dig, pit, target, victim, butt, excavation, fund, lode, objective, (ν) excavate.
- **κap'cpa** career; synonyms (n) calling, race, profession, vocation, business, craft, life, occupation, pursuit, (adj) job, occupational, (v) course, dash, speed, fly.
- **КАРИЙ** brown; *synonyms* (*adj*) chocolate, swarthy, tanned, (*n*) brunette, brownness, tan, (*v*) sear, cook, fry; *antonym* (*adj*) pale.
- KAPKAC 1. frame; synonyms (n) design, border, build, fashion, anatomy, chassis, (v) form, construct, fabricate, draft, erect, make, forge, constitute, contrive, 2. hull; synonyms (n) crust, shell, hulk, husk, structure, body, glume, (v) skin, (adj) torso, trunk, bole, 3. framework; synonyms (n) frame, fabric, framing, architecture, carcass, grating, rack, setting, skeleton, building, composition, construction, edifice, hull, makeup.
- карний criminal; synonyms (adj) guilty, illegal, sinful, wicked, condemnable, (n) convict, crook, culprit, hoodlum, malefactor, delinquent, felon, gangster, lawbreaker, (v) wrong; antonyms (adj) law-abiding, legal.
- **карта 1.** map; *synonyms* (n) design, graph, plat, diagram, mapping, picture, correspondence, (v) chart, plan, plot, project, 2. card; *synonyms* (n) bill, board, ticket, label, carte, menu, notice, placard, postal, scorecard, wit, (v) tease.
- **картина 1.** picture; *synonyms* (*n*) photograph, effigy, paint, drawing, likeness, depiction, description, (*v*) image, describe, draw, depict, fancy, imagine, copy, envision, **2.** painting; *synonyms* (*n*) picture, portrait, icon, design, coat, art, **3.** canvas; *synonyms* (*n*) duck, sail, sheet. (*v*) canvass, painting, tableau.
- **KAPTKA** card; *synonyms* (n) bill, board, ticket, label, carte, menu, notice, placard, postal, scorecard, wit, (v) tease.
- **картон** cardboard; *synonyms* (n) card, (adj) flimsy, paper, ponderous, unlifelike, fragile, light, slight, tenuous, thin.
- **КАРТОПЛИНА** potato (картопля); *synonyms* (n) murphy, spud, tater, bittersweet, countenance, eggplant, face, head.
- **картопля** potato; *synonyms* (*n*) murphy, spud, tater, bittersweet, countenance, eggplant, face, head.
- **καρτοτεκα** file; *synonyms* (n) archive, document, list, procession, rank, record, roll, series, string, (ν) order, rasp, register, scrape, abrade, arrange.
- καρτγ3 cap; synonyms (n) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (ν) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.

- **KAPTЯP** player; *synonyms* (*n*) musician, actor, participant, contestant, histrion, instrumentalist, performer, thespian, artiste, competitor, artist, athlete, entrant.
- **KAPILEP** cell; *synonyms* (n) cage, jail, cadre, hole, cave, booth, chamber, compartment, coop, cubicle, den, lair, recess.
- **kaca** till; *synonyms* (*prep*) until, unto, (*n*) drawer, tiller, cashbox, (*v*) cultivate, plow, hoe, farm, dig, turn.
- **Kaceta** cassette; *synonyms* (*n*) tape, copy, demo, footage, record, recording, soundtrack, video, videocassette, videotape, collection, compilation.
- **каска** helmet; synonyms (n) casque, helm, hood, cowl, hat, (v) headpiece, pickelhaube, armor, aegis, apron, backplate, brains, breastplate, brigandine, buckler.
- **КАСТРОВАНИЙ** cut; *synonyms* (*v*) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (*n*) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, lengthen, (*n*) addition, extension.
- KACTPYBATH alter; synonyms (v) adapt, change, move, adjust, affect, amend, castrate, convert, correct, shift, transform, turn, vary, alternate, distort; antonym (v) maintain.
- каструля 1. pan; synonyms (n) dish, knock, rap, panning, plate, platter, porringer, pot, saucer, calabash, hardpan, (v) slam, criticize, review, 2. cooker; synonym (n) cook.
- **KATAJIOΓ** catalogue; *synonyms* (*n*) catalog, list, bill, schedule, roll, inventory, (*v*) register, sort.
- **каталогізувати** catalogue; *synonyms* (*n*) catalog, list, bill, schedule, roll, inventory, (*v*) register, sort.
- καταcτροφα 1. crash; synonyms (n) clash, collision, smash, clank, clatter, fall, impact, (v) bang, collapse, break, clang, crack, dash, plunge, ram, 2. accident; synonyms (n) chance, casualty, coincidence, crash, fortune, circumstance, contingency, event, fortuity, hap, hazard, incident, luck, catastrophe, destiny, 3. collapse; synonyms (n) breakdown, subsidence, bust, debacle, defeat, demise, (v) slump, buckle, crumble, crumple, faint, flop, burst, deflate, disintegrate.
- KATATICЯ ride; *synonyms* (*n*) outing, run, lift, jaunt, voyage, (*v*) drive, bait, float, mount, rag, tease, harass, annoy, drift, (*adi*) bestride.
- **КАТЕГОРИЧНО** positively; *synonyms* (*adv*) certainly, absolutely, definitely, surely, necessarily, expressly, decidedly, categorically, clearly, favorably, yes, (*adj*) really; *antonyms* (*adv*) disapprovingly, negatively.
- Kateropis 1. category; synonyms (n) class, denomination, division, kind, type, variety, form, group, level, sort, cohort, plight, brand, breed, classification, 2. class; synonyms (n) category, grade, position, arrange, department, range, course, elegance, (v) place, rank, categorize, classify, order, assort, branch, 3. notion; synonyms (n) feeling, belief, idea, impression, caprice, concept, conception, fancy, image, imagination, opinion, guess, hunch, conjecture, (v) judgment, 4. rank; synonyms (n) file, gradation, line, degree, quality, rate, post, arrangement, condition, distinction, (adj) putrid, luxuriant, bad, (v) array, estimate; antonym (adj) fresh.

- **катування** torture; *synonyms* (*n*) torment, distress, pain, agony, anguish, suffering, excruciation, grief, misery, (*v*) rack, afflict, agonize, excruciate, persecute, martyr.
- **катувати** torture; *synonyms* (n) torment, distress, pain, agony, anguish, suffering, excruciation, grief, misery, (v) rack, afflict, agonize, excruciate, persecute, martyr.
- **KAYYYK** rubber; *synonyms* (n) caoutchouc, condom, eraser, galosh, overshoe, prophylactic, arctic, golosh, gumshoe, (v) rubberize.
- **КАФЕДРА** chair; *synonyms* (*n*) chairman, bench, chairperson, president, throne, couch, chairwoman, professorship, shop, (*v*) moderate, conduct, lead.
- качка duck; *synonyms* (*n*) darling, canvas, (*v*) dip, douse, plunge, dodge, circumvent, dive, evade, souse, bob, avoid, crouch, dunk, elude.
- KAIII cash; synonyms (n) ready, bread, capital, change, funds, money, coin, coins, currency, exchange, means, needful, wealth, (v) encash, liquidate; antonym (n) credit.
- **KAIIKET** cap; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (*v*) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.
- **каюта** cabin; *synonyms* (*n*) booth, hut, chamber, cot, lodge, room, shed, stall, apartment.
- KBa, Tpat Square; synonyms (adj) right, even, rectangular, fair, quadrate, straight, equal, (n) area, foursquare, rectangle, quadrilateral, (v) settle, agree, correspond, (adv) just.
- квадратний square; *synonyms* (*adj*) right, even, rectangular, fair, quadrate, straight, equal, (*n*) area, foursquare, rectangle, quadrilateral, (*v*) settle, agree, correspond, (*adv*) just.
- KBAJIIΦIKALIII 1. background; synonyms (n) backdrop, groundwork, setting, basis, context, education, environment, scene, backcloth, panorama, atmosphere, experience, ground, information, preparation, 2. qualification; synonyms (n) condition, capability, competence, fitness, limitation, prerequisite, provision, degree, ability, alteration, modification, requirement, (adj) faculty, endowment, property.
- кваліфікований skilled; synonyms (adj) adept, experienced, expert, practiced, skillful, able, accomplished, clever, competent, dexterous, proficient, old, adroit, capable, learned; antonyms (adj) inept, incompetent, inexperienced.
- **KBaHT** quantum; *synonyms* (n) amount, measure, magnitude, quantity, mass, measurement, sum, total, amplitude.
- **КВАПИТИ 1.** press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain, **2.** rush; *synonyms* (n) hurry, charge, flood, flow, attack, (v) dash, gush, race, run, speed, dart, hasten, stream, (adj) burst, spurt.
- KBAIIJIHBICTL hurry; synonyms (n) speed, haste, dispatch, flurry, (v) bustle, hasten, accelerate, dash, expedite, scurry, fly, run, rush, zip, hie; antonyms (n) slowness, (v) dawdle.
- KBAIIJIIBO hastily; synonyms (adv) fast, hurriedly, precipitately, promptly, rapidly, helter-skelter, carelessly, impetuously, imprudently, quickly, rashly,

- speedily, suddenly, thoughtlessly, (adj) headlong; antonyms (adv) slowly, carefully.
- квартал 1. quarter; *synonyms* (*n*) area, part, district, division, mercy, neighborhood, region, direction, portion, quart, (*v*) place, lodge, line, put, accommodate, 2. neighbourhood; *synonyms* (*n*) locality, vicinity.
- квартира 1. apartment; synonyms (n) flat, lodging, residence, chamber, dwelling, place, room, suite, abode, house, home, accommodation, domicile, housing, studio,
  2. flat; synonyms (adj) dull, bland, even, plain, insipid, level, plane, tasteless, dreary, boring, absolute, dead, downright, (n) apartment, (v) uninteresting; antonyms

(adj) exciting, high-pitched, bumpy.

- **квитанція 1.** receipt; *synonyms* (n) reception, acceptance, acknowledgment, acquittance, check, recipe, ticket, revenue, certificate, profit, account, invoice, voucher, contrivance, (v) acknowledge; *antonym* (n) dispatch, **2.** ticket; *synonyms* (n) pass, card, label, ballot, slate, tag, warrant, mark, slip, plank, platform, price, vote, (v) fine.
- квиток 1. ticket; *synonyms* (*n*) pass, card, label, certificate, ballot, check, slate, tag, warrant, mark, slip, voucher, plank, platform, (*v*) fine, 2. card; *synonyms* (*n*) bill, board, ticket, carte, menu, notice, placard, postal, scorecard, wit, (*v*) tease.
- **KBITKa** flower; *synonyms* (n) bouquet, cream, efflorescence, elite, floret, florescence, ornament, nosegay, (v) bloom, blossom, blow, flourish, (*adj*) prime, floral, fructify.
- квітнути flower (квітка); synonyms (n) bouquet, cream, efflorescence, elite, floret, florescence, ornament, nosegay, (v) bloom, blossom, blow, flourish, (adj) prime, floral, fructify.
- **КВІТУЧИЙ** blowing; *synonyms* (*v*) fanning, (*n*) bravado, (*adj*) windy, breezy.
- **KBOTA** quota; *synonyms* (*n*) portion, proportion, share, contingent, allowance, allotment, measure, quantity, ratio, ration, slice, lot, rate, part, percentage.
- **KEБ** cab; *synonyms* (*n*) cabriolet, taxi, taxicab, car, fly, hack, droshki, drosky, growler, vehicle, omnibus, drudge, hacker, jade, nag.
- **KeKc** cake; *synonyms* (n) bar, block, pastry, lump, pie, (v) harden, set, (adj) clot, fix.
- **келих 1.** cap; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (*v*) top, beat, limit, surpass, better, **2**. bowl; *synonyms* (*n*) basin, pot, plate, container, hollow, stadium, arena, depression, bowlful, trough, (*v*) hurl, roll, toss, troll, trundle.
- **KEJII9** cell; *synonyms* (n) cage, jail, cadre, hole, cave, booth, chamber, compartment, coop, cubicle, den, lair, recess
- **ΚΕΠΙ** cap; *synonyms* (n) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (ν) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.
- **Кепка** сар; *synonyms* (n) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (v) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.
- кепкувати joke (жарт); *synonyms* (n) jest, banter, hoax, fun, caper, gag, game, quip, antic, farce, humor, jape, jocularity, pleasantry, (v) chaff; *antonym* (n) tragedy.

- КЕПСЬКИЙ 1. bad (поганий); synonyms (adj) evil, adverse, harmful, immoral, naughty, poisonous, sad, sinister, wicked, malicious, infamous, appalling, awful, damaging, (v) decayed; antonyms (adj) fresh, pleasant, well, well-behaved, (n) good, 2. nasty; synonyms (adj) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, mean, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, distasteful, hurtful, obnoxious, raw, repulsive, unpleasant; antonyms (adj) agreeable, kind, nice, charitable, lovely.
- **кераміка** pottery; *synonyms* (*n*) ceramic, clay, stoneware, clayware, terracotta, chinaware, container, (*adī*) earthenware.
- **КЕРІВНИЙ 1**. chief; *synonyms* (*adj*) head, principal, cardinal, capital, arch, central, essential, first, main, (*n*) administrator, boss, captain, executive, leader, paramount; *antonyms* (*adj*) minor, associate, secondary, **2**. governing; *synonyms* (*adj*) dominant, leading, ruling, ascendant, chief, predominant, prevailing, (*n*) governance, administration, government.
- керівник 1. leader; synonyms (n) chief, guide, boss, captain, director, head, chieftain, commander, conductor, administrator, lead, principal, hero, executive, superior; antonyms (n) follower, straggler, 2. director; synonyms (n) manager, superintendent, chairman, coach, controller, leader, master, supervisor, officer, governor, inspector, instructor, overseer, pilot, (v) direct, 3. chief; synonyms (adj) cardinal, capital, arch, central, essential, first, main, primary, sovereign, basic, dominant, especial, foremost, (n) paramount, top; antonyms (adj) minor, associate, secondary, 4. superintendent; synonyms (n) custodian, keeper, caretaker, guardian, super, steward, janitor, ruler, examiner, surveyor, warden, (adj) curator, 5. manager; synonyms (n) handler, entrepreneur, owner, trainer; antonym (n) underling, 6. conductor; synonyms (n) chauffeur, ringleader, core, (v) guard; antonym (n) insulator, 7. administrator; synonym (n) official, 8. head (голова); synonyms (n) front, point, foam, froth, crown, chair, brain, end, forefront, heading, mind, president, bow, (adj) great, (v) command; antonyms (n) subordinate, (v) follow.
- керівництво 1. guidance; synonyms (n) direction, government, control, advice, administration, counsel, lead, guide, instruction, recommendation, regulation, care, (v) conduct, management, charge, 2. direction; synonyms (n) bearing, command, course, guidance, address, rule, aspect, aim, order, prescription, dictate, hand, drift, bidding, commission, 3. leadership; synonyms (n) authority, generalship, influence, leading, supervision, supremacy, leaders, power, 4. lead (свинець); synonyms (v) head, contribute, direct, chair, conduce, go, govern, bring, convey, give, carry, dispose, (n) clue, advantage, (adj) front; antonym (v) follow, 5. leading; synonyms (adj) chief, main, outstanding, great, capital, dominant, foremost, principal, best, central, major, (v) first, (n) cardinal, leadership, (adv) ahead; antonym (adj) minor.
- **KEPMO** wheel; *synonyms* (*n*) circle, cycle, bicycle, gear, handwheel, rack, (*v*) roll, revolve, turn, bike, spin, trundle, gyrate, rotate, twirl.
- **керування 1**. management; *synonyms* (*n*) administration, conduct, guidance, command, control,

direction, government, handling, leadership, charge, treatment, behavior, steerage, (v) manage, (adj) executive, 2. administration; synonyms (n) management, organization, running, power, execution, reign, rule, supervision, department, application, incumbency, ministry, authority, disposal, governance, 3. control; synonyms (n) care, hold, influence, sway, ascendancy, ascendency, dominance, regulation, (v) check, curb, bridle, handle, conquer, contain, order; antonyms (n) freedom, weakness, (v) intensify, share, 4. government; synonyms (n) dominion, cabinet, authorities, governing, politics, regime, establishment, regimen, adjustment, bureaucracy, dynasty, (adj) empire, public, national.

керувати 1. manage; synonyms (v) conduct, direct, administer, do, govern, accomplish, arrange, control, cope, deal, handle, lead, work, maintain, (n) guide, 2. direct; synonyms (adj) straight, blunt, immediate, transparent, (v) aim, channel, address, charge, dictate, head, level, order, point, bend, (n) command; antonyms (adj) indirect, roundabout, circuitous, oblique, secondhand, sideways, unplanned, (v) request, 3. conduct; synonyms (n) behavior, administration, manage, demeanor, performance, (v) act, bring, carriage, acquit, bearing, carry, comport, show, accompany, bear, 4. boss; synonyms (n) chief, governor, overseer, superior, ruler, administrator, captain, director, executive, foreman, leader, manager, principal, stud, superintendent, 5. guide; synonyms (n) escort, directory, attendant, usher, pilot, rule, steer, adviser, introduction, boss, (v) drive, advise, cicerone, convey, conduce; antonym (v) follow, **6**. control; synonyms (n) authority, care, hold, influence, sway, ascendancy, ascendency, dominance, regulation, (v) check, curb, bridle, conquer, contain, reign; antonyms (n) freedom, weakness, (v) intensify, share, 7, run; synonyms (v) flow, dash, gush, race, career, function, go, hasten, hurry, operate, pour, (n) pass, campaign, course, (adj) stream, 8. lead (свинець); synonyms (v) contribute, chair, give, dispose, run, take, chairman, administrate, advance, incline, (n) clue, advantage, hint, leash, (adj) front, 9. rule; synonyms (n) decree, dominion, law, ordinance, principle, regulate, government, line, precept, code, constitution, custom, formula, (v) dominate, measure

**КЕРУЮЧИЙ** governor; *synonyms* (*n*) director, chief, manager, regulator, administrator, controller, ruler, superintendent, leader, executive, head, master, official, protector, warden.

**KUBATU** nod; *synonyms* (n) bow, greeting, beck, sleep, motion, assent, fiat, agreement, behest, (v) nap, doze, signal, beckon, bob, stoop.

**ΚΗΒΟΚ** nod; *synonyms* (n) bow, greeting, beck, sleep, motion, assent, fiat, agreement, behest, (ν) nap, doze, signal, beckon, bob, stoop.

**КИДАННЯ 1.** casting; *synonyms* (*n*) cast, molding, pouring, air, appearence, border, feeding, manufacturing, contrivance, direction, four, glance, lift, look, mien, **2**. cast; *synonyms* (*v*) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (*n*) appearance, casting, mold, **3**. projection; *synonyms* (*n*)

bulge, hump, jut, prominence, protuberance, knob, ledge, overhang, plan, protrusion, bump, map, extrusion, forecast, (adj) salient.

кидати 1. throw; synonyms (v) cast, fling, shed, hurl, chuck, flip, heave, pass, deliver, drop, give, hurtle, (n) pitch, push, shot, 2. cast; synonyms (v) throw, form, stamp, shape, dump, figure, mould, pelt, assign, (n) appearance, casting, mold, type, build, air, 3. desert (Пустеля); synonyms (n) wilderness, (v) abandon, escape, defect, ditch, forsake, leave, relinquish, abscond, (adj) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, worth; antonyms (n) bog, (v) stay, 4. pitch; synonyms (n) degree, dip, slant, slope, measure, angle, delivery, grade, (v) lurch, tilt, toss, careen, launch, erect, fall, 5. launch; synonyms (n) boat, inauguration, initiation, launching, (v) initiate, begin, dart, found, fire, introduce, commence, establish, inaugurate, institute, start; antonym (v) end.

кидатися rush; *synonyms* (n) hurry, charge, flood, flow, attack, (v) dash, gush, race, run, speed, dart, hasten, stream, (adj) burst, spurt.

кидок 1. cast; synonyms (v) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (n) appearance, casting, mold, 2. shy; synonyms (adj) diffident, fearful, timid, abashed, reserved, ashamed, coy, modest, nervous, reticent, self-conscious, backward, careful, (v) cast, pitch; antonyms (adj) brash, bold, confident, demonstrative, forward, outgoing, 3. pitch; synonyms (n) degree, dip, slant, slope, measure, angle, delivery, (v) lurch, tilt, toss, careen, launch, erect, fall, flip, 4. throw; synonyms (v) pass, deliver, drop, give, hurtle, jerk, make, project, bewilder, dumbfound, mystify, nonplus, (n) push, shot, shy.

KUЙOK club; synonyms (n) association, bat, circle, society, stick, baton, company, cudgel, fraternity, gang, group, guild, (v) beat, bludgeon, hit.

**килим 1**. rug; *synonyms* (*n*) blanket, carpet, carpeting, mat, coverlet, counterpane, quilt, floor, sheet, tarpaulin, bathmat, doormat, flooring, runner, (*v*) plunder, **2**. carpet; *synonyms* (*n*) rug, strips, tiles, layer, (*v*) cover, drape, encase, rebuke, attack, criticize, jaw, obscure, row, slate, vilify.

KUM who (XTO); synonyms (pron) one, (adj) which, what. KUHYTU throw; synonyms (v) cast, fling, shed, hurl, chuck, flip, heave, pass, deliver, drop, give, hurtle, (n) pitch, push, shot.

**КИП'ЯТИЛЬНИК** boiler; *synonyms* (*n*) kettle, furnace, heater, banality, evaporator, seether, cistern, container, kettleful, kiln, oven, reservoir, timpani, tympani, tympanum.

кисень oxygen; synonym (n) o.

кислий 1. sour; synonyms (adj) morose, sharp, acid, bitter, rancid, severe, gruff, dour, glum, grim, pungent, (v) acidify, ferment, (n) harsh, acidity; antonyms (adj) sweet, kindly, 2. acid; synonyms (adj) acerbic, acidic, caustic, sour, acerb, acrid, cutting, pointed, sarcastic, acrimonious, astringent, biting, blistering, corrosive, (v) tart

кислота acid; synonyms (adj) acerbic, acidic, bitter, caustic, sharp, sour, acerb, acrid, cutting, pointed, sarcastic, acrimonious, astringent, biting, (v) tart; antonym (adj) sweet.

- КИСЛЯТИНА sour (кислий); synonyms (adj) morose, sharp, acid, bitter, rancid, severe, gruff, dour, glum, grim, pungent, (v) acidify, ferment, (n) harsh, acidity; antonyms (adj) sweet, kindly.
- кишеньковий pocket; *synonyms* (*n*) cavity, pouch, hole, hollow, (*v*) bag, take, appropriate, sack, steal, lift, catch, embezzle, misappropriate, pilfer, (*adi*) digest.
- кишеня pocket; *synonyms* (*n*) cavity, pouch, hole, hollow, (*v*) bag, take, appropriate, sack, steal, lift, catch, embezzle, misappropriate, pilfer, (*adi*) digest.
- **KUIIIKA 1**. gut; *synonyms* (*n*) belly, abdomen, bowel, catgut, (*v*) eviscerate, pillage, ransack, despoil, spoil, loot, sack, plunder, disembowel, ravage, (*adj*) internal, **2**. bowel; *synonyms* (*n*) gut, intestine, colon, offspring, (*adj*) intestinal.
- кишковий intestinal; synonyms (adj) enteric, enteral, intestine, abdominal, inner, alimentary, celiac, duodenal, gut, inside, interior, internal, inward, rectal, spaghetti.
- KLJ 1. pale; synonyms (adj) ghastly, faint, wan, dull, light, pallid, weak, watery, cadaverous, (v) dim, blanch, (n) boundary, confine, border, bound; antonyms (adj) dark, rosy, strong, brown, 2. stake; synonyms (n) bet, chance, venture, post, wager, interest, shaft, adventure, column, deposit, (v) hazard, risk, gamble, back, gage.
- KIJOK stake; synonyms (n) bet, chance, venture, post, wager, interest, shaft, adventure, column, deposit, (v) hazard, risk, gamble, back, gage.
- KIJIBBATEP wake; synonyms (v) awaken, awake, rouse, stir, arouse, excite, provoke, vigil, waken, kindle, (n) train, trail, backwash, track, wave; antonym (v) sleep.
- кілька 1. several; *synonyms* (*adj*) many, different, individual, various, numerous, particular, separate, special, manifold, respective, (*v*) diverse, divers, sundry, (*n*) some, (*det*) any; *antonym* (*adj*) few, 2. some; *synonyms* (*adv*) nearly, rather, somewhat, about, approximately, around, roughly, round, almost, near, (*adj*) certain, several, extraordinary, quantitative, (*n*) one, 3. something; *synonyms* (*pron*) anything, (*n*) what, object, thing, article, entity.
- **кількісний** quantitative; *synonyms* (*adj*) some, measurable, quantitive, wholesale.
- **КІЛЬКІСТЬ 1.** quantity; *synonyms* (*n*) amount, extent, measure, multitude, quantum, sum, total, portion, heap, bulk, capacity, deal, degree, magnitude, mass, **2**. amount; *synonyms* (*n*) number, quantity, aggregate, figure, price, volume, body, cost, size, value, whole, quota, rate, height, (*v*) come, **3**. number; *synonyms* (*n*) count, score, act, issue, character, company, digit, numeral, (*v*) calculate, enumerate, add, account, compute, list, reckon.
- **KLJIbKOMA** several; *synonyms* (*adj*) many, different, individual, various, numerous, particular, separate, special, manifold, respective, (*v*) diverse, divers, sundry, (*n*) some, (*det*) any; *antonym* (*adj*) few.
- **кільце** ring; *synonyms* (*n*) encircle, band, gang, jingle, loop, rim, circuit, annulus, (*v*) circle, call, peal, echo, resound, reverberate, gird.
- **кімната 1**. room; *synonyms* (*n*) chamber, latitude, occasion, apartment, hall, house, opening, opportunity, expanse, extent, flat, margin, area, cabin, (*y*) board, **2**.

- apartment (квартира); *synonyms* (n) lodging, residence, dwelling, place, room, suite, abode, home, accommodation, domicile, housing, studio.
- кімнатний indoor; *synonyms* (*adj*) domestic, (*v*) home, intramural; *antonym* (*adj*) outside.
- **ΚΙΗΕΜΑΤΟΓΡΑΦ** cinema; *synonyms* (n) movies, film, show, celluloid.
- **ΚΙΗΕΜΑΤΟΓΡΑΦΙЯ** cinema; *synonyms* (n) movies, film, show, celluloid.
- кінець 1. end; synonyms (n) close, aim, closure, destination, conclusion, death, cause, demise, object, (v) cease, complete, finish, discontinue, conclude, (prep) consequence; antonyms (n) beginning, maintenance, opening, middle, (v) start, begin, continue, 2. decline; synonyms (n) decay, declension, decrease, dip, declination, (v) wane, drop, reject, fall, abate, ebb, fail, refuse, sink, deny; antonyms (n) improvement, recovery, development, growth, rebirth, (v) increase, rise, accept, flourish, improve, **3**. finish; **synonyms** (v) end, achieve, execute, accomplish, determine, consume, do, stop, (n) consummate, ending, finale, glaze, accomplishment, coating, completion, 4. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, brief, airless, (v) compact, bar, block, (adv) by, about, (n) expiration; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open, 5. last; synonyms (v) endure, hold, exist, live, dwell, go, (n) abide, finis, (adj) extreme, closing, final, ultimate, conclusive, concluding, farthest; antonym (adj) first, **6**. outcome (наслідок); synonyms (n) aftermath, effect, issue, product, fruit, event, result, decision, corollary, outgrowth, purpose, sequel, upshot, offspring, answer
- **КІННИЙ** mounted; *synonyms* (*adj*) equestrian, firm.
- **кіно 1.** movie; synonyms (n) film, flick, pic, picture, show, cinema, image, celluloid, characterisation, characterization, delineation, depiction, exposure, icon, ikon, 2. cinema; synonym (n) movies.
- **KIHOCEAHC** showing; *synonyms* (n) show, display, exhibit, screening, revelation, exposition, presentation, viewing.
- KIHOCTYДIЯ studio; synonyms (n) atelier, cabinet, accommodation, building, bungalow, cottage, den, farmhouse, igloo, manor, mansion, terrace, villa, loft.
- **KIHOTEATP** cinema; *synonyms* (*n*) movies, film, show, celluloid.
- кінцевий 1. terminal; synonyms (adj) final, last, definitive, endmost, fatal, concluding, incurable, (n) depot, end, extremity, terminus, boundary, station, destination, 2. eventual; synonyms (adj) terminal, prospective, ultimate, future, likely, probable, latter, potential, coming, forthcoming, indirect, secondary, vicarious, approaching, conditional.
- кінцівка limb; *synonyms* (n) arm, bough, branch, member, extremity, offshoot, part, edge, wing, gavelock, handspike, jemmy, jimmy.
- кінчати 1. finish; synonyms (v) end, complete, achieve, execute, accomplish, cease, determine, discontinue, consume, do, (n) close, consummate, conclusion, death, conclude; antonyms (v) start, begin, continue, (n) beginning, 2. down; synonyms (adv) below, (adj) cut, dejected, depressed, downward, despondent, dispirited,

- downcast, downhearted, gloomy, (n) feather, fur, fuzz, (v) devour, drink; antonyms (adv) up, (adj) cheerful, happy, upward, 3. end; synonyms (n) aim, closure, destination, cause, demise, object, tail, effect, period, design, border, butt, (v) finish, closing, (prep) consequence; antonyms (n) maintenance, opening, middle, 4. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, brief, airless, (v) compact, stop, bar, (adv) by, about, (n) expiration; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open.
- KIHЧИК 1. tail; synonyms (n) rear, shadow, behind, butt, posterior, rump, stub, (v) follow, pursue, track, trail, chase, dog, tag, (adj) back; antonyms (v) head, front, 2. tip; synonyms (n) top, hint, peak, point, pinnacle, apex, bribe, clue, crown, gratuity, (v) incline, tilt, dump, lean, slant, 3. point; synonyms (n) place, grade, nib, edge, aim, article, degree, dot, mark, spot, phase, detail, end, (v) direct, level.
- **КІНЧИТИ** finish; *synonyms* (v) end, complete, achieve, execute, accomplish, cease, determine, discontinue, consume, do, (n) close, consummate, conclusion, death, conclude; *antonyms* (v) start, begin, continue, (n) beginning.
- кінь horse; *synonyms* (n) cavalry, mount, buck, heroin, junk, knight, boar, cock, dog, drake, gander, hart.
- κίρκα crust; synonyms (n) bark, cheekiness, covering, gall, impertinence, peel, shell, skin, coating, encrustation, impudence, incrustation, insolence, rind, (ν) coat.
- кістка bone; *synonyms* (*n*) os, ivory, mouth, osmium, argument, bead, block, (*v*) cartilage, swot, gristle, prepare, arise, attire, beat, bill.
- кісточка ankle; synonyms (n) knuckle, crane, crotch, crutch, fluke, groin, kimbo, scythe, sickle, zigzag, ancle, elbow, knee, (r) abrogate, amble.
- кістяк skeleton; *synonyms* (n) carcass, frame, framework, sketch, bones, anatomy, body, outline, scaffold, cadaver, chassis, corpse, plan, shell, (v) draft.
- KiT cat (KIIIKA); synonyms (n) caterpillar, guy, lynx, bozo, hombre, puss, (v) disgorge, puke, regorge, regurgitate, retch, spew, spue, upchuck, vomit.
- кішка саt (кіт); *synonyms* (n) caterpillar, guy, lynx, bozo, hombre, puss, (v) disgorge, puke, regorge, regurgitate, retch, spew, spue, upchuck, vomit.
- клавіатура keyboard; synonym (n) upright.
- KJIABIIII key; synonyms (adj) central, fundamental, basic, cardinal, essential, chief, important, principal, (n) guide, handle, clue, legend, clef, password, (v) identify.
- клавіша key; synonyms (adj) central, fundamental, basic, cardinal, essential, chief, important, principal, (n) guide, handle, clue, legend, clef, password, (v) identify.
- кладовище 1. cemetery; synonyms (n) graveyard, churchyard, necropolis, charnel, catacomb, crypt, garden, headstone, mortuary, ossuary, polyandrium, sepulcher, 2. churchyard; synonyms (n) cemetery, cloisters, kirkyard.
- KJIAH tribe; synonyms (n) family, clan, house, folk, kin, kindred, nation, people, race, stock, lineage, breed, line, folks, kind.

- кланятися bow; *synonyms* (*n*) arc, curve, obeisance, turn, curvature, (*v*) bend, arch, stoop, duck, buckle, crouch, incline, kowtow, crook, defer.
- клапан valve; synonyms (n) lock, sluice, door, gauge, monitor, spout.
- **КЛАПТИК** patch; *synonyms* (*n*) darn, fleck, mend, plot, bed, blot, freckle, bit, blotch, dapple, field, maculation, (*v*) piece, botch, fix.
- клас 1. class; synonyms (n) category, group, form, grade, position, arrange, brand, department, kind, (v) sort, place, rank, categorize, classify, order, 2. category; synonyms (n) class, denomination, division, type, variety, level, cohort, plight, breed, classification, collection, estate, family, nature, predicament, 3. school (школа); synonyms (n) academy, sect, college, herd, shoal, swarm, (v) educate, instruct, train, coach, cultivate, discipline, edify, teach, (adj) educational, 4. notion; synonyms (n) feeling, belief, idea, impression, caprice, concept, conception, fancy, image, imagination, opinion, guess, hunch, conjecture, (v) judgment, 5. nature; synonyms (n) character, disposition, essence, creation, quality, attribute, constitution, humor, manner, mettle, temperament, genus, characteristic, complexion, cosmos, **6**. rate; *synonyms* (n) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (v) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put.
- KJACHK classic; *synonyms* (*adj*) classical, model, archetypal, exemplary, ideal, typical, representative, traditional, archaic, heroic, (*n*) masterpiece; *antonym* (*n*) second-rate.
- класифікація classification; synonyms (n) arrangement, categorization, class, grading, assortment, categorisation, category, order, rank, analysis, breakdown, classifying, method, disposition, section; antonym (n) declassification.
- КЛАСИФІКОВАНИЙ classified; synonyms (adj) confidential, secret, clandestine, private, hush-hush, inside, chronological, exclusive, personal, privileged, regular, concealed, confidence, undisclosed.
- КЛАСИФІКУВАТИ 1. class; synonyms (n) category, group, form, grade, position, arrange, brand, department, kind, (v) sort, place, rank, categorize, classify, order, 2. group (група); synonyms (n) bunch, brigade, collection, crowd, flock, gang, association, clump, company, gathering, lump, muster, (v) assemblage, class, cluster, 3. rank; synonyms (n) range, file, gradation, line, degree, quality, rate, post, arrangement, condition, (adj) putrid, luxuriant, bad, (v) array, estimate; antonym (adj) fresh.
- класичний 1. classic; synonyms (adj) classical, model, archetypal, exemplary, ideal, typical, representative, traditional, archaic, heroic, (n) masterpiece; antonym (n) second-rate, 2. classical; synonyms (adj) correct, attic, authoritative, chaste, perfect, (n) classic, refined.
- КЛАСОВИЙ class; synonyms (n) category, group, form, grade, position, arrange, brand, department, kind, (v) sort, place, rank, categorize, classify, order.
- **KJIACTEP** cluster; *synonyms* (*n*) bunch, clump, batch, group, agglomeration, collection, crowd, gang, knot, lot, tuft, (*v*) bundle, huddle, collect, gather; *antonym* (*v*) disperse.

- класти 1. put; synonyms (v) place, fix, lay, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, (n) deposit, 2. lay; synonyms (v) put, install, lie, rest, invest, bear, allay, bet, impute, repose, settle, (adj) secular, calm, laic, (n) ballad, 3. set; synonyms (v) regulate, define, adjust, congeal, posit, (n) class, bent, circle, lot, party, batch, (adj) fixed, fast, secure, ready; antonyms (v) soften, liquefy, melt, (n) combing, comb-out, (adj) variable, flexible, liquid.
- KJIEЙМИТИ brand; synonyms (n) badge, blade, class, kind, stain, type, emblem, falchion, make, nature, slur, (v) mark, denounce, (adj) stigma, blot.
- KJIEЙMO 1. burn; synonyms (v) bite, glow, blaze, incinerate, scorch, sting, bake, beam, boil, cremate, flare, ignite, sunburn, (n) fire, (adj) flush; antonym (v) dawdle,
  2. marking; synonyms (n) mark, earmark, brand, crisscross, marker, grading, stamping, cross, labeling, distinction, grade, labelling, blazing, chump, fool.
- клерикальний clerical; *synonyms* (*adj*) accounting, bookkeeping, theocratic, administrative, church, directorial, managerial, organizational, parsonical, pious, religious, apostolic, assistant, (*n*) minister, preacher.
- клерк clerk; synonyms (n) writer, transcriber, accountant, employee, recorder, salesclerk, bailiff, cashier, (v) amanuensis, secretary, scribe, scrivener.
- КЛИКАТИ call; synonyms (v) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (n) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; antonym (v) dismiss.
- yell, appoint, command, demand; *antonym* (v) dismiss. **KJIHHOK** blade; *synonyms* (n) vane, beau, knife, brand, foil, leaf, razor, shaft, steel, sword.
- RAIEHT 1. customer; synonyms (n) consumer, buyer, patron, client, guest, purchaser, shopper, fellow, passenger, person, spender; antonym (n) seller, 2. client; synonym (n) customer, 3. patron; synonyms (n) backer, champion, advocate, friend, benefactor, defender, helper, sponsor, frequenter, supporter, abettor, fautor, favorer, guarantor, booster.
- клієнтура custom; *synonyms* (n) tradition, habit, convention, practice, usage, use, fashion, impost, method, observance, order, rite, ritual, (v) accustom, (adj) bespoke.
- KJIMAKC climax; *synonyms* (*n*) apex, top, acme, culmination, orgasm, zenith, height, meridian, pinnacle, summit, extremity, apogee, (*v*) peak, crown, culminate; *antonym* (*v*) dip.
- клімат climate; synonyms (n) atmosphere, clime, ambience, latitude, environment, milieu, mood, weather.
- клініка clinic; *synonyms* (n) infirmary, hospital, workshop, clinique, faculty, hospice, institution, class, meeting, practicum, (v) clinical.
- клінічний clinical; synonyms (adj) neutral, antiseptic, emotionless, scientific.
- клітина cell; synonyms (n) cage, jail, cadre, hole, cave, booth, chamber, compartment, coop, cubicle, den, lair, recess.
- клітка 1. cage; synonyms (n) jail, pen, hutch, cell, corral, crate, frame, gaol, enclosure, (v) confine, enclose, imprison, incarcerate; antonym (v) free, 2. cell; synonyms (n) cage, cadre, hole, cave, booth, chamber, compartment, coop, cubicle, den, lair, recess.

- R.Tonit 1. trouble; synonyms (n) distress, bother, pain, anxiety, difficulty, (v) inconvenience, annoy, disorder, disquiet, worry, afflict, agitate, burden, distract, disturb; antonyms (v) calm, please, 2. WOTTY; synonyms (v) torment, trouble, tease, care, fear, molest, vex, fret, (n) concern, harass, fuss, annoyance, sorrow, apprehension, (adj) irritate; antonyms (v) soothe, reassure, (n) calmness, reassurance.
- **KJIOTIOTAHHЯ** suit; *synonyms* (*n*) lawsuit, plea, action, case, (*v*) agree, fit, correspond, accommodate, adapt, answer, become, match, meet, please, adjust.
- клуб club; synonyms (n) association, bat, circle, society, stick, baton, company, cudgel, fraternity, gang, group, guild, (v) beat, bludgeon, hit.
- KJIYFOK roll; synonyms (n) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (v) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow.
- клунок bundle; synonyms (n) cluster, pile, sheaf, batch, group, heap, load, package, packet, parcel, stack, wad, (v) bunch, pack, clump.
- клуня barn; synonyms (n) shed, store, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (adi) foul, unclean.
- ключ 1. key; synonyms (adj) central, fundamental, basic, cardinal, essential, chief, important, principal, (n) guide, handle, clue, legend, clef, password, (v) identify, 2. fountain; synonyms (n) fount, font, jet, source, origin, well, derivation, root, spout, squirt, wellspring, (v) spring, flow, 3. clue; synonyms (n) clew, cue, hint, sign, signal, suggestion, token, evidence, indication, inkling, key, pointer, information, (v) tip.
- ключка club; *synonyms* (*n*) association, bat, circle, society, stick, baton, company, cudgel, fraternity, gang, group, guild, (*v*) beat, bludgeon, hit.
- **КЛЮЧОВИЙ** key; *synonyms* (*adj*) central, fundamental, basic, cardinal, essential, chief, important, principal, (*n*) guide, handle, clue, legend, clef, password, (*v*) identify.
- КЛЯТВА oath; synonyms (n) curse, expletive, malediction, affidavit, cuss, pledge, promise, swearing, assurance, adjuration, asseveration, blasphemy, agreement, sacrament, swearword.
- кмітливий 1. quick (Швидкий); synonyms (adj) bright, prompt, active, agile, clever, hasty, intelligent, nimble, speedy, alert, alive, cursory, dexterous, expeditious, (adv) fast; antonyms (adj) slow, leisurely, dull, 2. acute; synonyms (adj) sharp, incisive, intense, keen, penetrating, critical, piercing, severe, shrewd, shrill, smart, strong, acrid, acuate, (v) high; antonym (adj) obtuse, 3. intelligent (розумний); synonyms (adj) astute, intellectual, quick-witted, rational, sensible, cunning, brilliant, canny, gifted, knowing, knowledgeable, quick, wise, witty, discerning; antonyms (adj) unintelligent, dim, dull-witted, thick, stupid.
- KMITJIHBICTЬ apprehension; synonyms (n) alarm, comprehension, dread, arrest, capture, foreboding, misgiving, trepidation, understanding, appreciation, anticipation, agitation, (adj) anxiety, care, (v) doubt; antonyms (n) reassurance, release, confidence, calmness.

- книга 1. book; synonyms (n) bible, journal, pamphlet, tome, volume, writing, text, manuscript, (v) order, reserve, apply, inscribe, list, record, arrest, 2. volume; synonyms (n) bulk, size, book, magnitude, mass, quantity, dimension, amount, capacity, intensity, loudness, content, (adj) deal, pot, sight; antonym (n) quietness.
- **КНИЖКА** book (книга); *synonyms* (n) bible, journal, pamphlet, tome, volume, writing, text, manuscript, (v) order, reserve, apply, inscribe, list, record, arrest.
- кнопка 1. button; *synonyms* (*n*) knop, buckle, bud, clasp, fastening, key, push, (*v*) knob, fasten, (*adj*) pin, tie, 2. key; *synonyms* (*adj*) central, fundamental, basic, cardinal, essential, chief, important, principal, (*n*) guide, handle, clue, legend, clef, password, (*v*) identify.
- княгиня princess; synonyms (n) empress, queen, czarina, monarch, lady, darling, moppet, mopsey, noble, ruler, sultana.
- **КНЯЗЬ** prince; *synonyms* (*n*) monarch, potentate, duke, sovereign, king, chief, ruler, magnate.
- коаліція coalition; synonyms (n) alliance, association, combination, league, union, affiliation, alignment, alinement, coalescence, confederation, fusion, junction, compact, bond, consolidation; antonym (n) nonalignment.
- кобила mare; *synonyms* (n) bitch, doe, hen, horse, jennet, boundary, genet, lady, mere, mount, roe, sow, stallion, charger, gelding.
- **Коваль** smith; *synonyms* (n) metalworker, architect, artificer, artist, bricklayer, builder, maker, manufacturer, mason, craftsman.
- **KOBÓaca** sausage; *synonyms* (*n*) frankfurter, blimp, pudding, intestine.
- **КОВБОЙСЬКИЙ** western; *synonyms* (*adj*) westerly, occidental, descending, falling, occasive, occiduous, ponent, westbound.
- ковдра blanket; synonyms (n) bedding, sheet, counterpane, covering, coverlet, (v) cloak, cover, (adj) sweeping, overall, comprehensive, global, generic, wholesale, broad, general.
- ковзання 1. slip; synonyms (n) lapse, fault, mistake, cutting, error, escape, oversight, scion, trip, (v) fall, slide, drop, glide, skid, (adj) blunder; antonym (v) improve, 2. slide; synonyms (n) chute, decline, transparency, gliding, recession, (v) slip, slither, run, slump, coast, descend, sag, cut, tumble, (adj) shift, 3. slipping; synonyms (n) skidding, slippage, (adj) sliding, slithering, down, labent.
- **ΚΟΒ3ΑΤΗ 1.** Slide; *synonyms* (*n*) glide, chute, decline, transparency, gliding, (*v*) drop, slip, fall, slither, run, slump, coast, skid, descend, (*adj*) shift, **2.** slip; *synonyms* (*n*) lapse, fault, mistake, cutting, error, escape, oversight, scion, trip, ticket, band, dip, (*v*) slide, sag, (*adj*) blunder; *antonym* (*v*) improve.
- **KOB3HUÑ** sliding; *synonyms* (*adj*) gliding, down, downhill, descending, downward, labent, elusory, telescopic, (*n*) slipping, skating, shifting.
- **KOBΠAK** lid; *synonyms* (n) cover, top, chapeau, eyelid, hat, closure, restriction, covercle, palpebra.

- код code; *synonyms* (*n*) cipher, charter, law, act, key, rule, codex, canon, constitution, regulation, (*v*) cypher, encode, encipher, encrypt.
- кодекс 1. code; *synonyms* (*n*) cipher, charter, law, act, key, rule, codex, canon, constitution, regulation, (*v*) cypher, encode, encipher, encrypt, 2. corpus; *synonyms* (*n*) body, substance, material, matter, principal, stuff, pabulum, core, element, hyle, mass, parenchyma, principle, quantity, substratum.
- **КОДУВАТИ** code; *synonyms* (*n*) cipher, charter, law, act, key, rule, codex, canon, constitution, regulation, (*v*) cypher, encode, encipher, encrypt.
- **ΚΟΕΦΙЩΙЄΗΤ** rate; *synonyms* (n) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (v) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put.
- KOЖЕН each; synonyms (adv) apiece, (adj) every, any, singular, distinct, eche, ilk, eminent, exceptional, extraordinary, odd, same, strange, uncommon, unique.
- кожний 1. each; *synonyms* (*adv*) apiece, (*adj*) every, any, singular, distinct, eche, ilk, eminent, exceptional, extraordinary, odd, same, strange, uncommon, unique, 2. either; *synonym* (*conj*) other.
- **KO3EHЯ** kid; *synonyms* (*n*) baby, child, youngster, infant, juvenile, toddler, tot, babe, (*v*) joke, jest, banter, chaff, mock, fool, jolly.
- **KO3JIH** box; *synonyms* (*n*) basket, cage, chest, package, booth, blow, carton, case, container, crate, envelope, (*v*) cuff, buffet, beat, fight; *antonym* (*v*) unbox.
- коктейль cocktail; *synonyms* (*n*) appetizer, mixture, combination, blend, concoction, mix, alcohol, beverage, brew, draft, drink, infusion, potion, beer, (*v*) champagne.
- **KOJAHC** collapse; *synonyms* (*n*) crash, breakdown, fall, subsidence, bust, debacle, (*v*) break, slump, buckle, crack, crumble, crumple, faint, flop, burst.
- колега colleague; *synonyms* (*n*) associate, buddy, assistant, collaborator, friend, partner, brother, acquaintance, ally, companion, fellow, mate, attendant, chum, coworker.
- коледж college; synonyms (n) faculty, school, academy, association, institute, society, institution, university, (adj) academic.
- **КОЛЕКТИВ** collective; *synonyms* (*adj*) aggregate, general, joint, common, cumulative, generic, mutual, communal, community, cooperative, corporate, social, unanimous, (*n*) commune, group; *antonyms* (*adj*) capitalist, distributive, private.
- колективний collective; synonyms (adj) aggregate, general, joint, common, cumulative, generic, mutual, communal, community, cooperative, corporate, social, unanimous, (n) commune, group; antonyms (adj) capitalist, distributive, private.
- **KOJIEKTOP** collector; *synonyms* (*n*) accumulator, receiver, gatherer, caporal, choregus, commissioner, flugelman, linkboy, woon, aggregator, bearer, cashier, investor, hoarder, magpie.
- **колекціонер** collector; *synonyms* (*n*) accumulator, receiver, gatherer, caporal, choregus, commissioner, flugelman, linkboy, woon, aggregator, bearer, cashier, investor, hoarder, magpie.

- KOJIEKUIOHYBATH collect; synonyms (v)
  assemble, accumulate, amass, gather, pick, accrue,
  acquire, aggregate, cluster, collate, congregate, convene,
  cull, harvest, hoard; antonyms (v) disperse, distribute.
- колекція collection; *synonyms* (n) accumulation, assembly, assortment, bundle, gathering, set, bunch, cluster, compilation, heap, mass, pile, variety, batch, (v) assemblage.
- **κοπεco** wheel; *synonyms* (*n*) circle, cycle, bicycle, gear, handwheel, rack, (*v*) roll, revolve, turn, bike, spin, trundle, gyrate, rotate, twirl.
- коли 1. when; *synonyms* (*adv*) as, once, then, because, than, since, equally, erst, erstwhile, formerly, (*conj*) although, while, immediately, (*prep*) during, (*adj*) following, 2. while; *synonyms* (*conj*) whereas, though, (*n*) spell, time, period, moment, interval, space, bit, piece, (*adv*) when, whilst, 3. if; *synonyms* (*conj*) provided, providing, whether, and, so, an, gin, (*n*) but, conditionally, condition, stipulation, proviso, rider, (*adv*) peradventure, except, 4. as; *synonyms* (*conj*) qua, considering, (*prep*) like, (*adv*) from, (*n*) arsenic.
- **КОЛИВАННЯ** swing; *synonyms* (*n*) sweep, range, (*v*) sway, fluctuate, oscillate, dangle, hang, rock, beat, brandish, change, move, shake, turn, vibrate.
- **KOJIMBATH** rock; *synonyms* (*n*) boulder, calculus, pillar, (*v*) jar, sway, cradle, jolt, shake, toss, waver, quake, pitch, reel, (*adj*) pebble, stone.
- KOJIUBATUCЯ swing; synonyms (n) sweep, range, (v) sway, fluctuate, oscillate, dangle, hang, rock, beat, brandish, change, move, shake, turn, vibrate.
- коли-небудь 1. ever; synonyms (adv) always, continually, e'er, perpetually, eternally, (adj) constantly, still, forever; antonym (adv) never, 2. sometime; synonyms (adv) someday, once, sometimes, formerly, (adj) erstwhile, former, quondam, old, late.
- колись 1. formerly; synonyms (adv) before, already, earlier, aforetime, first, erst, erstwhile, once, previously, afore, beforehand, originally, sometime, sometimes, 2. ever; synonyms (adv) always, continually, e'er, perpetually, eternally, (adj) constantly, still, forever; antonym (adv) never, 3. sometimes; synonyms (adv) occasionally, formerly, seldom, periodically, off-and-on, otherwhiles, usually, consistently, intermittently, recurrently, (n) exemplar, meantime, meanwhile, specimen, (adj) former, 4. once; synonyms (adv) when, (n) whilom, 5. sometime; synonyms (adv) someday, (adi) quondam, old, late.
- **KOJIHXATH** swing; *synonyms* (n) sweep, range, (v) sway, fluctuate, oscillate, dangle, hang, rock, beat, brandish, change, move, shake, turn, vibrate.
- колихатися wave; *synonyms* (n) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (v) brandish, flap, flutter, curl, flourish, swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon.
- колишній 1. former; synonyms (adv) before, (adj) antecedent, anterior, bygone, earlier, foregoing, previous, prior, original, deceased, past, preceding, foremost, primary, (n) predecessor; antonym (adj) future, 2. ancient; synonyms (adj) aged, old, antiquated, obsolete, former, antique, archaic, hoary, primitive, olden, antediluvian, dated, older, outmoded, (n) elder; antonym (adj) modern, 3. Drior; synonyms (adj)

- preliminary, advance, introductory, (n) abbot, cenobite, conventual; antonym (adj) subsequent, 4. old (старий); synonyms (adj) ancient, elderly, experienced, outdated, veteran, decrepit, mature, stale, disused, hackneyed, late, traditional, decayed, inveterate, auld; antonyms (adj) new, young, fresh, latest, novel, youthful.
- **KOJISIS 1.** collision; *synonyms* (*n*) clash, clashing, conflict, crash, hit, smash, accident, rencounter, jar, hitting, striking, blow, concussion, contact, discord, **2.** impact; *synonyms* (*n*) shock, collision, force, effect, impingement, impression, influence, touch, bang, consequence, jolt, push, upshot, (*v*) affect, ram.
- **KOJIHA** lap; *synonyms* (n) circle, circuit, fold, coil, knee, orbit, (v) lick, overlap, bind, (adv) compass, encircle, encompass, embrace, enclose, beset.
- **коліно** knee; *synonyms* (*n*) elbow, genu, scythe, sickle, zigzag, angle, hinge, junction, know, stifle.
- κοπip colour; synonyms (n) coloration, coloring, colouring, semblance, vividness, (v) color, discolor, discolour, distort, tinge.
- коліт colitis; synonym (n) colonitis.
- колія track; *synonyms* (n) course, path, line, racetrack, road, route, (v) trace, trail, hunt, tail, chase, pursue, dog, follow, footprint.
- коло 1. circle; synonyms (n) round, association, band, compass, ring, field, range, beat, circuit, company, gang, scope, (v) turn, whirl, encircle, 2. ring (кільце); synonyms (n) jingle, loop, rim, annulus, arena, clique, (v) circle, call, peal, echo, resound, reverberate, gird, buzz, ding, 3. by; synonyms (prep) beside, at, of, about, on, per, (adv) aside, away, past, through, apart, along, beyond, (adv, prep) alongside, (adj) over, 4. round; synonyms (adv) around, (adj) circular, plump, entire, chubby, complete, fat, rotund, (n) bout, cycle, orbit, patrol, rung, sequence, wheel; antonyms (adj) slim, sharp, 5. near; synonyms (prep) by, (adv) close, almost, towards, approximately, (adj) adjoining, adjacent, contiguous, imminent, impending, narrow, coming, (v) familiar, approximate, approach; antonym (adj) distant.
- **коловий** circular; *synonyms* (*adj*) round, annular, circinate, globular, orbicular, rotund, rounded, spherical, (*n*) advertisement, bill, handbill, brochure, publication, bulletin, flier; *antonym* (*adj*) square.
- колода log; *synonyms* (*n*) journal, record, block, diary, timber, backlog, firewood, register, billet, logarithm, bobbing, calendar, (*v*) enter, chronicle, lumber.
- **КОЛОДЯЗЬ** well (добре); *synonyms* (*adv*) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, good, (*adj*) healthy, fit, shaft, sound, robust, (*n*) fountain, spring, pit, (*v*) gush; *antonyms* (*adv*) ill, badly, poorly, (*adj*) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous.
- колона column; *synonyms* (n) pillar, procession, row, stanchion, file, line, obelisk, post, prop, support, series, monolith, buttress, (adj) tower, minaret.
- колоніальний colonial; synonyms (adj) antebellum, precolumbian, compound, grand, imposing, majestic, quaint, regal, royally, crude, dependent, dominion, emigrant, frontier, immigrant.
- **колонія** colony; *synonyms* (n) settlement, community, plantation, dependency, village, mandate, possession,

- protectorate, assembly, closure, colonisation, colonization, flock, nation, territory.
- **KOJIOHKA** column; *synonyms* (n) pillar, procession, row, stanchion, file, line, obelisk, post, prop, support, series, monolith, buttress, (adj) tower, minaret.
- **КОЛОРИТНИЙ** picturesque; *synonyms* (*adj*) graphic, striking, colorful, idyllic, lovely, quaint, scenic, vivid, romantic, (*v*) pictorial.
- **KOJOTU** chip; *synonyms* (*n*) splinter, bit, flake, chipping, fleck, fragment, microchip, part, scrap, shaving, check, (*v*) crack, cut, nick, peel.
- **KOJIVIIATU** pick; *synonyms* (v) clean, gather, harvest, opt, break, (n) alternative, elite, best, choice, option, selection, (*adj*) cream, select, mattock, flower.
- **КОЛЬОРОВИЙ** coloured; *synonyms* (*adj*) biased, black, colorful, dyed, blue, aslant, aslope, benighted, bleached, closed, dark, slanted, depressing, diagonal, disconsolate.
- **ΚΟΛΙΒΗΥΓΑ** mail; *synonyms* (n) armor, communication, correspondence, (v) post, send, remit, habergeon, shield, place, transmit, direct, dispatch.
- **Колядка** carol; *synonyms* (n) chant, canticle, song, ballad, canzonet, strain, hymn, bravura, cantata, (v) warble, sing.
- команда 1. squad; synonyms (n) gang, brigade, crew, detachment, party, team, bunch, knot, band, company, section, troop, platoon, division, (v) set, 2. team; synonyms (n) squad, organization, side, couple, faction, group, (v) pair, (adj) rank, file, line, range, row, string, 3. party; synonyms (n) assembly, association, gathering, affair, bevy, celebration, crowd, do, meeting, club, body, circle, entertainment, festivity, function, 4. brigade; synonyms (n) army, battalion, corps, legion, contingent, battalia, column, garrison, host, wing, battery, sotnia, subdivision, 5. crew; synonyms (n) cluster, assemblage, horde, mob, pack, partnership, personnel, ring, staff, communion, corporation.
- **командир** commander; *synonyms* (*n*) captain, chief, commandant, leader, head, governor, chieftain, conductor, master, skipper.
- **КОМАНДУВАТИ** command; *synonyms* (*n*) control, instruction, behest, bidding, decree, direction, administration, ascendancy, authority, (*v*) charge, order, rule, call, commission, direct; *antonym* (*v*) request.
- **КОМАНДУЮЧИЙ** commander; *synonyms* (n) captain, chief, commandant, leader, head, governor, chieftain, conductor, master, skipper.
- **KOMAXA** insect; *synonyms* (*n*) bug, worm, bird, fish, louse, beast, amphibian, animal, crustacean, mammal, (*adj*) animalcule, maggot, midge, minnow, shrimp.
- **KOMAXH** insect; *synonyms* (n) bug, worm, bird, fish, louse, beast, amphibian, animal, crustacean, mammal, (adj) animalcule, maggot, midge, minnow, shrimp.
- **KOMБAЙH** combine; *synonyms* (v) amalgamate, associate, blend, affiliate, fuse, attach, piece, aggregate, coalesce, incorporate, join, league, merge, (n) cartel, combination; *antonym* (v) separate.
- комбінація combination; synonyms (n) alliance, blend, union, association, coalition, league, merger, amalgam, aggregate, amalgamation, collection, complex,

- composition, concoction, (adj) compound; antonyms (n) separation, (adj) simple.
- **КОМБІНОВАНИЙ** combined; *synonyms* (*adj*) joint, united, collective, aggregate, amalgamated, concerted, cooperative, incorporate, conjunct, conjunctive, connected, fused, joined, (*adv*) jointly, together; *antonyms* (*adj*) individual, simple.
- **KOMБІНУВАТИ** combine; *synonyms* (*v*) amalgamate, associate, blend, affiliate, fuse, attach, piece, aggregate, coalesce, incorporate, join, league, merge, (*n*) cartel, combination; *antonym* (*v*) separate.
- комедія comedy; *synonyms* (*n*) farce, play, humor, drollery, clowning, drama, show; *antonym* (*n*) tragedy.
- **КОМЕНДАНТ** governor; *synonyms* (*n*) director, chief, manager, regulator, administrator, controller, ruler, superintendent, leader, executive, head, master, official, protector, warden.
- **коментар 1**. commentary; *synonyms* (*n*) annotation, comment, exposition, note, observation, article, criticism, critique, explanation, footnote, gloss, remark, review, **2**. comment; *synonyms* (*n*) commentary, censure, mention, reflection, animadversion, account, feature, gossip, report, (*v*) annotate, notice, discourse, expound, interpret, observe.
- **KOMEHTAPIŬ** commentary; *synonyms* (n) annotation, comment, exposition, note, observation, article, criticism, critique, explanation, footnote, gloss, remark, review.
- **KOMEHTATOP** analyst; *synonyms* (*n*) psychoanalyst, analyzer, expert, psychiatrist, examiner, commentator, accountant, authority, chemist, counselor, critic, detective, forecaster, investigator, observer.
- KOMEHTYBAHHЯ comment; synonyms (n) annotation, commentary, critique, note, censure, criticism, explanation, mention, observation, reflection, animadversion, (v) annotate, remark, gloss, notice.
- **коментуватн** comment; *synonyms* (*n*) annotation, commentary, critique, note, censure, criticism, explanation, mention, observation, reflection, animadversion, (*v*) annotate, remark, gloss, notice.
- комерційний commercial; synonyms (adj) business, mercantile, merchant, mercenary, profitable, economic, industrial, (n) advertisement, ad, publicity, announcement; antonyms (adj) charitable, noncommercial.
- комерція commerce; *synonyms* (*n*) business, exchange, connection, dealings, intercourse, association, barter, communication, conversation, traffic, interchange, (*v*) trade, affair.
- **комин** chimney; *synonyms* (*n*) stack, flue, shaft, smokestack, vent, gully, main, nostril, nozzle, tap, throat, trachea, weasand, aperture, escape.
- **КОМИШ** rush; *synonyms* (*n*) hurry, charge, flood, flow, attack, (*v*) dash, gush, race, run, speed, dart, hasten, stream, (*adī*) burst, spurt.
- **КОМІВОЯЖЕР** traveller; *synonym* (*n*) traveler. **комір** collar; *synonyms* (*n*) arrest, choker, pinch, ruff, chaplet, flange, (*v*) catch, apprehend, capture, clutch, grab, nail, cop, get, grasp.

- **комірець** collar; *synonyms* (*n*) arrest, choker, pinch, ruff, chaplet, flange, (*v*) catch, apprehend, capture, clutch, grab, nail, cop, get, grasp.
- **KOMICAP** commissioner; *synonyms* (n) commissary, delegate, agent, executive, official, representative, collector.
- **KOMICIOHEP** factor; *synonyms* (*n*) agent, component, broker, divisor, element, ingredient, part, deputy, consideration, feature, parameter, point, delegate, item, (*adj*) constituent.
- **KOMICIA** commission; *synonyms* (n) board, mission, delegation, job, mandate, warrant, assignment, charge, committee, (v) assign, accredit, designate, appoint, authorize, delegate.
- **KOMÍTET** committee; *synonyms* (*n*) board, council, commission, consignee, trustee, cabinet, bureau, staff, group, team, administration, assembly, charge, class, commissioning.
- комічний comic; *synonyms* (*adj*) amusing, burlesque, comical, funny, humorous, laughable, absurd, droll, ludicrous, (*n*) clown, comedian, joker, buffoon, jester, zany.
- **комора** 1. barn; *synonyms* (*n*) shed, store, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (*adj*) foul, unclean, **2**. depot; *synonyms* (*n*) depository, arsenal, station, storehouse, warehouse, dump, entrepot, stockroom, stop, storage, storeroom, terminal, terminus.
- компактний 1. compact; synonyms (adj) close, dense, compendious, concise, hard, (n) agreement, arrangement, contract, covenant, bargain, engagement, (v) compress, condense, consolidate, pack; antonyms (adj) loose, sprawling, bulky, sparse, 2. dense; synonyms (adj) compact, thick, crowded, deep, crass, dim, dull, heavy, impenetrable, solid, stupid, concentrated, dumb, firm, gross; antonyms (adj) bright, insightful, clever, intelligent, readable, simple.
- **KOMIIAKTHICTЬ** density; *synonyms* (n) compactness, consistency, concentration, denseness, stupidity, firmness, solidity, massiveness, stand, crassitude, frequency, weight, absorption, assiduity, assiduousness; *antonym* (n) looseness.
- **κομπαμίπ 1**. company; *synonyms* (n) companionship, society, association, band, business, cohort, collection, brigade, assemblage, bevy, caller, club, companion, corps, (ν) accompany; *antonym* (n) solitude, **2**. party; *synonyms* (n) gang, company, assembly, crew, gathering, group, affair, celebration, crowd, do, faction, meeting, knot, body, circle.
- компаньйон 1. companion; synonyms (n) colleague, buddy, mate, peer, chum, comrade, fellow, partner, assistant, brother, acquaintance, attendant, (adj) associate, ally, (v) accompany; antonym (n) enemy, 2. partner; synonyms (n) consort, copartner, accomplice, companion, collaborator, pal, friend, confederate, wife, match, accessory, husband, cooperator, pardner, spouse.
- компас compass; *synonyms* (*n*) range, scope, area, circle, circumference, extent, reach, room, breadth, (*v*) round, get, grasp, accomplish, achieve, (*adv*) beset.
- компенсація 1. compensation; synonyms (n) amends, recompense, allowance, indemnification, reward, price, atonement, emolument, fee, pay, redress, refund,

- reimbursement, remuneration, (v) wage, **2**. consideration; *synonyms* (n) concern, respect, attention, care, reflection, thought, account, cogitation, conception, deliberation, notice, tact, thoughtfulness, (v) regard, condition; *antonyms* (n) thoughtlessness, impulsiveness, inconsideration, **3**. indemnity; *synonyms* (n) compensation, damages, reparation, restitution, excuse, exoneration, insurance, quittance, release, security.
- **компенсувати** compensate; *synonyms* (*v*) balance, pay, recompense, reimburse, counterbalance, recoup, remunerate, repay, reward, cover, correct, expiate, indemnify, offset, redeem.
- компетентний 1. competent; synonyms (adj) able, capable, adequate, clever, effective, efficient, fit, sufficient, commensurate, accomplished, adept, appropriate, enough, experienced, good; antonyms (adj) incompetent, useless, inept, 2. adequate; synonyms (adj) acceptable, right, condign, effectual, passable, satisfactory, agreeable, competent, decent, equal, fair, full, qualified, ample, corresponding; antonyms (adj) inadequate, insufficient, unsatisfactory, 3. qualified; synonyms (adj) eligible, conditional, proficient, expert, certified, limited, restricted, fitted, prepared, provisional, proper, responsible, skilled, trained, accredited; antonyms (adj) unqualified, total, unofficial, definite.
- **компетентність** competence; *synonyms* (*n*) capacity, adequacy, ability, capability, efficiency, sufficiency, aptitude, expertise, fitness, skill, talent, competency, craft, dexterity, (*adj*) proficiency; *antonyms* (*n*) incompetence, inability.
- **KOMΠΕΤΕΗЦІЯ** capacity; *synonyms* (n) capability, aptitude, capacitance, function, intelligence, talent, might, dimension, content, endowment, faculty, gift, measure, position, (*adj*) ability; *antonyms* (n) inability, incapability.
- **КОМПЛЕКС** complex; *synonyms* (*adj*) composite, complicate, abstruse, difficult, elaborate, intricate, knotty, abstract, tricky, multifarious, complicated, compound, convoluted, (*n*) obsession, combination; *antonyms* (*adj*) simple, basic, straightforward, clear, plain.
- комплексний complex; synonyms (adj) composite, complicate, abstruse, difficult, elaborate, intricate, knotty, abstract, tricky, multifarious, complicated, compound, convoluted, (n) obsession, combination; antonyms (adj) simple, basic, straightforward, clear, plain.
- **ROMILIERT 1.** Set; *synonyms* (*v*) fix, place, lay, put, locate, position, regulate, define, adjust, arrange, (*n*) class, bent, (*adj*) fixed, fast, secure; *antonyms* (*v*) soften, liquefy, melt, (*n*) combing, comb-out, (*adj*) variable, flexible, liquid, **2**. suite; *synonyms* (*n*) retinue, series, entourage, apartment, cortege, flat, train, court, battery, group, rooms, (*adj*) round, succession, **3**. suit; *synonyms* (*n*) lawsuit, plea, action, case, petition, (*v*) agree, fit, correspond, accommodate, adapt, answer, become, match, meet, please, **4**. kit; *synonyms* (*n*) gear, outfit, equipment, stuff, fiddle, set, tackle, tools.
- **KOMIIJEKTYBAHHЯ** gathering; *synonyms* (n) assembly, accumulation, collection, concourse,

- assemblage, congregation, crowd, compilation, convention, crew, gather, meeting, throng, bunch, bevy.
- композитор 1. composer; *synonyms* (*n*) author, musician, penman, instrumentalist, artist, artiste, calligrapher, conductor, maestro, performer, player, singer, 2. musician; *synonyms* (*n*) minstrel, actor, virtuoso.
- **КОМПОЗИЦІЯ** composition; *synonyms* (*n*) arrangement, constitution, construction, texture, alloy, amalgam, article, combination, composing, compost, compound, compromise, harmony, makeup, organization.
- **KOMITOHEHT** component; *synonyms* (*n*) constituent, factor, ingredient, part, detail, element, feature, member, unit, accessory, division, piece, portion, section, (*adj*) fundamental
- **KOMΠOCTEP** punch; *synonyms* (*n*) jab, drill, cuff, die, wallop, blow, dig, knock, (*v*) poke, hit, prick, beat, perforate, stab, thrust.
- **KOMIPECIA** compression; *synonyms* (n) compaction, condensation, pressure, compressing, concentration, consolidation, contraction, squeezing, concretion.
- **КОМПРОМЕТУВАТИ** COMPTOMISE; *synonyms* (n) agreement, arrangement, bargain, accommodation, concession, settlement, understanding, adjustment, accord, appeasement, deal, arbitration, (v) compound, endanger, imperil; *antonym* (v) dispute.
- **компроміс** 1. compromise; *synonyms* (*n*) agreement, arrangement, bargain, accommodation, concession, settlement, understanding, adjustment, accord, appeasement, deal, arbitration, (*v*) compound, endanger, imperil; *antonym* (*v*) dispute, 2. accommodation; *synonyms* (*n*) compromise, loan, lodging, adaptation, apartment, convenience, ease, facility, fitting, housing, (*v*) advance, (*adj*) adaption.
- **KOMII** 'IOTEP computer; synonyms (n) calculator, mainframe, machine, reckoner, laptop, computist, estimator, figurer, workstation, analog, brain, clone, compatible, (v) number, program.
- **KOMY** who (XTO); *synonyms* (*pron*) one, (*adj*) which, what.
- комунальний communal; synonyms (adj) common, civic, joint, mutual, public, social, national, community, shared; antonyms (adj) private, individual.
- **комунізм** communism; *synonyms* (*n*) collectivism, socialism, phalansterianism, communalism, dictatorship, (*v*) statism; *antonym* (*n*) capitalism.
- **KOMYHIKALIJЯ** communication; *synonyms* (*n*) announcement, commerce, communicating, contact, conversation, discourse, epistle, intercourse, letter, message, news, notice, report, tidings, word.
- **KOMYHICT** Communist; *synonyms* (*adj*) communistic, carbonaro, frondeur, collective, insurgent, intolerant, mutineer, quisling, rebel, (*n*) commie, cosmopolite, terrorist, anarchist, philanthropist, radical.
- **KOMYTATOP** board; *synonyms* (n) council, bench, meal, panel, table, office, sign, commission, committee, court, embark, plank, (v) keep, lodge, accommodate; *antonym* (v) disembark.
- **комфорт** comfort; *synonyms* (n) solace, ease, consolation, relief, aid, amenity, assistance, support,

- alleviation, (v) allay, assuage, cheer, alleviate, soothe, (adj) calm; **antonyms** (n) discomfort, aggravation, (v) alarm, annoy, frighten.
- комфортабельний comfortable; synonyms (adj) cozy, easy, agreeable, pleased, pleasing, prosperous, congenial, pleasurable, rich, enjoyable, commodious, content, contented, (v) snug, calm; antonyms (adj) uncomfortable, poor, formal, tense, unpleasant, intimidating, unaccustomed, unhappy.
- **KOHBEEP** line; *synonyms* (*n*) cord, file, house, breed, course, family, lineage, field, ancestry, border, boundary, cable, crease, row, (*v*) order.
- **KOHBEHUIS** convention; *synonyms* (*n*) conference, congress, meeting, contract, assembly, convocation, council, custom, tradition, agreement, assemblage, bargain, gathering, habit, practice.
- **конверт** envelope; *synonyms* (*n*) container, pack, case, jacket, blanket, vesicle, package, box, packet, screen, (*v*) cover, covering, cloak, veil, wrap.
- **КОНВЕРТУВАТИ** CONVERT; *synonyms* (v) alter, change, adapt, reform, commute, invert, exchange, modify, switch, transform, turn, become, (n) proselyte, neophyte, (adj) believer.
- **КОНВОЙ** CONVOY; *synonyms* (*n*) guard, column, fleet, procession, safeguard, train, (*v*) accompany, conduct, guide, attend, bring, lead, (*adj*) escort.
- KOHBOIOBATU convoy; synonyms (n) guard, column, fleet, procession, safeguard, train, (v) accompany, conduct, guide, attend, bring, lead, (adj) escort.
- **KOHFPEC 1.** congress; *synonyms* (*n*) assembly, convention, convocation, council, conference, intercourse, meeting, congregation, confluence, association, gathering, synod, cockpit, coition, coitus, **2**. diet; *synonyms* (*n*) congress, nurture, food, dieting, fare, nourishment, sustenance, fast; *antonyms* (*v*) binge, (*adj*) fattening.
- кондуктор conductor; synonyms (n) leader, chief, director, chauffeur, commander, manager, pilot, ringleader, core, (v) guard, guide; antonym (n) insulator.
- **KOHUK** hobby; *synonyms* (*n*) fad, amusement, avocation, cockhorse, interest, pastime, pursuit, entertainment, diversion, hobbyhorse, recreation, sideline, activity.
- конкретний 1. concrete; synonyms (adj) actual, positive, physical, real, tangible, fixed, palpable, definite, firm, material, (n) cement, (v) coagulate, congeal, concretion, set; antonyms (adj) theoretical, intangible, abstract, hypothetical, incidental, 2. specific; synonyms (adj) individual, special, concrete, exact, peculiar, precise, especial, accurate, clear, express, single, certain, characteristic, distinct, (n) particular; antonyms (adj) universal, vague, (n) general.
- конкретно specifically, synonyms (adv) especially, namely, specially, definitely, expressly, precisely, clearly, particularly, exactly; antonym (adv) generally.
- **конкурент** 1. competitor; *synonyms* (*n*) rival, antagonist, adversary, candidate, challenger, match, competition, contender, opponent, enemy, aspirant, entrant, contestant, corrival, player, 2. rival; *synonyms* (*adj*) competitive, competing, opposed, (*n*) competitor,

- emulate, foe, outvie, (v) equal, contest, compete, contend, oppose, compare, meet, surpass; *antonyms* (*adj*) allied, (n) ally, friend, partner.
- KOHKУРЕНТНИЙ competitive; synonyms (adj) competitory, rival, cutthroat, athletic, belligerent, cheap, dog-eat-dog, hostile, militant, spirited, unfriendly, bloodthirsty, fighting, killer, opposing, antonym (adj) noncompetitive.
- конкуренція competition; *synonyms* (*n*) contest, rivalry, bout, competitor, contention, game, match, race, rival, combat, battle, conflict, contender, emulation, event; *antonym* (*n*) cooperation.
- **KOHKYPC 1.** Contest; *synonyms* (n) bout, competition, conflict, fight, altercation, contention, race, struggle, (v) battle, compete, combat, contend, dispute, argue, challenge, **2.** competition; *synonyms* (n) contest, rivalry, competitor, game, match, rival, contender, emulation, event, feud, fixture, opposition, strife, challenger; *antonym* (n) cooperation.
- конкурувати 1. compete; synonyms (v) emulate, race, rival, strive, participate, oppose, contend, contest, struggle, vie, play, run, 2. rival; synonyms (adj) competitive, competing, (n) competitor, enemy, foe, adversary, antagonist, challenger, contender, contestant, corrival, opponent, (v) equal, match, compete; antonyms (adj) allied, (n) ally, friend, partner.
- KOHKYPYЮЧИЙ competitive; synonyms (adj) competitory, rival, cutthroat, athletic, belligerent, cheap, dog-eat-dog, hostile, militant, spirited, unfriendly, bloodthirsty, fighting, killer, opposing, antonym (adj) noncompetitive.
- **KOHCEHCYC** consensus; *synonyms* (*n*) concord, accord, agreement, harmony, unanimity, unity, equality, classlessness, egalitarianism, (*adj*) unanimous; *antonym* (*n*) inequality.
- консервативний conservative; synonyms (adj) moderate, bourgeois, conventional, cautious, reactionary, unprogressive, careful, right, hidebound, orthodox, safe, traditional, intolerant, (n) square, traditionalist; antonyms (adj) activist, wide-ranging, (n) liberal, radical.
- **KOHCEPBATOP** conservative; *synonyms* (*adj*) moderate, bourgeois, conventional, cautious, reactionary, unprogressive, careful, right, hidebound, orthodox, safe, traditional, intolerant, (*n*) square, traditionalist; *antonyms* (*adj*) activist, wide-ranging, (*n*) liberal, radical.
- KOHCEPBYBAHHSI 1. conservation; synonyms (n) maintenance, preservation, upkeep, keep, custody, protection; antonym (n) destruction, 2. preservation; synonyms (n) conservation, keeping, care, salvation, saving, security, creation; antonyms (n) extinction, release.
- κοнсервувати 1. tin (Олово); synonyms (n) can, canister, container, rhino, dust, blunt, cannister, mopus, mould, (ν) pot, preserve, cure, bottle, embalm, kyanize,
  2. can; synonyms (ν) tin, dismiss, fire, might, pickle, sack, (n) bathroom, behind, buttocks, lavatory, posterior, rump, jar, jail, arse; antonym (ν) hire,
  3. cure; synonyms (n) remedy, antidote, medicine, salve, curative, curing, healing, therapy, treatment, (ν) correct, help, treat, heal, restore, keep,
  4. pack; synonyms (n)

- bundle, mob, bevy, bunch, company, herd, batch, backpack, box, gang, (v) crowd, compress, heap, cram, fill; *antonym* (v) unpack, **5**. preserve; *synonyms* (v) maintain, defend, guard, hold, save, protect, uphold, perpetuate, continue, observe, (n) conserve, jam, jelly, conserves, marmalade; *antonym* (v) destroy.
- **консиліум 1.** council; *synonyms* (n) assembly, board, congress, consultation, convention, convocation, diet, legislature, meeting, cabinet, conclave, **2.** consultation; *synonyms* (n) advice, conference, interview, negotiation, counsel, discussion, talk, audience, advisement, council, deliberation, reference, appointment.
- консолідація consolidation; *synonyms* (n) amalgamation, unification, combination, fortification, union, condensation, joinder, coalition, integration.
- **КОНСОЛІДУВАТИ** fund; *synonyms* (*n*) stock, store, capital, bank, reserve, savings, supply, cache, endowment, (*v*) hoard, bankroll, finance, accumulate, back, sponsor.
- **KOHCOPHIYM** consortium; *synonyms* (n) syndicate, cartel, association, combination, organization, pool, alliance, federation, league, band, collection, collective, group, marriage, monopoly.
- KOHCHEKT 1. scheme; synonyms (n) contrivance, dodge, arrangement, device, diagram, method, project, schedule, (v) plan, plot, design, intrigue, devise, conspire, contrive, 2. syllabus; synonyms (n) curriculum, program, conspectus, synopsis, summary, compendium, course, epitome, outlines, prospectus, 3. summary; synonyms (n) abstract, abridgment, outline, digest, report, precis, condensation, gist, (adj) brief, compendious, concise, succinct, curt, short, laconic.
- **KOHCIIPALIS** conspiracy; *synonyms* (n) cabal, confederacy, intrigue, plot, combination, complot, collusion, coalition, design, plan, scheme.
- **KOHCTAHTA** CONSTANT; *synonyms* (*adj*) ceaseless, incessant, perpetual, steady, continual, abiding, changeless, consistent, continuous, eternal, faithful, frequent, loyal, resolute, (*n*) invariable; *antonyms* (*adj*) changeable, intermittent, irregular, sporadic, variable, episodic, erratic, inconstant, disloyal, fickle, inconsistent, occasional, temporary, unreliable.
- KOHCTATYBATH state (держава); synonyms (n) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, place, (v) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, (adj) national; antonyms (v) deny, (adj) private.
- констебль constable; *synonyms* (*n*) policeman, alderman, burgomaster, portreeve, alguazil, tipstaff, beagle, committeeman, councilman, councilwoman, detective, seneschal, sheriff, shrieve, warden.
- конституційний constitutional; synonyms (adj) congenital, essential, inherent, intrinsic, legal, organic, constituent, constitutive, inborn, inbuilt, innate, integral, lawful, (n) walk, journey; antonym (adj) unconstitutional.
- **конституція** constitution; *synonyms* (*n*) composition, code, makeup, organization, temperament, build, foundation, character, charter, construction, disposition, formation, law, structure, (*adj*) nature.

- конструктивний constructive; synonyms (adj) positive, beneficial, helpful, productive, useful, worthwhile, practical; antonyms (adj) negative, unhelpful, destructive.
- **KOHCTPYKTOP** designer; *synonyms* (*n*) architect, couturier, creator, drawer, engineer, inventor, maker, decorator, (*v*) artist, projector; *antonym* (*adj*) off-therack.
- конструкція construction; synonyms (n) building, fabrication, formation, structure, assembly, fabric, frame, organization, production, arrangement, constitution, creation, edifice, make, making; antonym (n) destruction.
- консультант 1. consultant; *synonyms* (*n*) advisor, adviser, expert, authority, specialist, professional, analyst, psychoanalyst, psychotherapist, shrink, therapist, whiz, guide, guru, 2. adviser; *synonyms* (*n*) consultant, counselor, counsel, prompter, teacher, agent, assistant, confidante, dealer, dictator, herald, informer, instructor, barrister, helper.
- консультативний 1. advisory; synonyms (adj) consultative, instructive, consultatory, hortative, admonitory, clarifying, consultive, descriptive, deterrent, didactic, expounding, illuminating, illustrative, informative, prudential, 2. consultative; synonyms (adj) advisory, review, counseling, deliberate.
- консультація 1. consultation; *synonyms* (*n*) advice, conference, interview, negotiation, counsel, discussion, talk, audience, advisement, council, deliberation, meeting, reference, appointment, 2. advice; *synonyms* (*n*) admonition, caution, warning, exhortation, instruction, intelligence, monition, notice, report, tidings, announcement, communication, direction, guidance, hint.
- **KOHCYJIbTYBATH** advise; *synonyms* (v) admonish, acquaint, inform, propose, recommend, suggest, warn, apprise, caution, exhort, forewarn, instruct, notify, offer, tell; *antonym* (v) oppose.
- **KOHTAKT** contact; *synonyms* (*n*) touch, connection, collision, communication, link, impact, tangency, acquaintance, (*v*) call, meet, adjoin, communicate, reach, butt, join.
- KOHTAKTYBATU contact; synonyms (n) touch, connection, collision, communication, link, impact, tangency, acquaintance, (v) call, meet, adjoin, communicate, reach, butt, join.
- контейнер 1. container; synonyms (n) box, jar, package, basket, carton, cylinder, envelope, pan, pot, vessel, bin, parcel, cistern, barrel, bottle, 2. carrier; synonyms (n) bearer, messenger, courier, mailman, porter, postman, vehicle, transport, envoy, bag, channel, container, emissary, newsboy, solvent.
- **KOHTEKCT** Context; *synonyms* (n) circumstance, environment, setting, surroundings, background, atmosphere, note, page, backdrop, condition, milieu, case, ambiance, meaning, perspective.
- **KOHTUHEHT** continent; *synonyms* (n) land, delta, peninsula, area, boundary, capacity, circle, (adj) chaste, celibate, abstemious, pure, temperate, abstinent, sober, austere; *antonym* (adj) incontinent.

- **континентальний** continental; *synonyms* (*adj*) littoral, midland, riparian, earthy.
- **KOHTOPA** office; *synonyms* (n) charge, agency, duty, function, position, commission, appointment, division, authority, berth, bureau, job, part, place, post.
- **KOHTOPKA** desk; *synonyms* (*n*) bench, box, coffer, table, caddy, caisson, case, casket, chest.
- KOHTPAKT CONTract; synonyms (n) compact, charter, (v) covenant, bargain, concentrate, condense, narrow, catch, compress, constrict, shrink, wrinkle, abbreviate, (adj) abridge, shorten; antonyms (v) expand, widen, stretch.
- **KOHTPACT 1.** opposition; *synonyms* (*n*) contrast, conflict, antithesis, contrary, contrariety, antagonism, enemy, hostility, opponent, opposite, competition, contradiction, antagonist, antipathy, aversion; *antonym* (*n*) consent, **2**. contrast; *synonyms* (*n*) comparison, distinction, difference, variation, collation, dissimilarity, divergence, line, (*v*) differ, oppose, collate, diverge, clash, counterpoint, differentiate; *antonym* (*n*) similarity.
- KOHTPHEYUIS 1. contribution; synonyms (n) allowance, donation, gift, offering, share, tax, effort, dues, endowment, grant, investment, part, participation, payment, present, 2. indemnity, synonyms (n) amends, compensation, damages, indemnification, pay, redress, reparation, restitution, excuse, exoneration, insurance, quittance, recompense, release, security.
- **KOHTPOJIEP 1.** controller; *synonyms* (*n*) administrator, superintendent, accountant, comptroller, control, director, governor, manager, regulator, ruler, leader, boss, head, supervisor, **2.** supervisor; *synonyms* (*n*) overseer, chief, foreman, controller, examiner, executive, inspector, superior, keeper, curator, custodian, steward, guardian, officer.
- контроль 1. control; *synonyms* (*n*) rule, authority, care, hold, influence, sway, ascendancy, ascendency, (*v*) command, check, curb, bridle, conduct, handle, conquer; *antonyms* (*n*) freedom, weakness, (*v*) intensify, share, 2. check; *synonyms* (*v*) stop, block, limit, agree, halt, restrain, bar, dampen, delay, hinder, (*n*) control, arrest, bill, cheque, stay.
- **κοητροποβατu** 1. control; *synonyms* (*n*) rule, authority, care, hold, influence, sway, ascendancy, ascendency, (*ν*) command, check, curb, bridle, conduct, handle, conquer; *antonyms* (*n*) freedom, weakness, (*ν*) intensify, share, 2. check; *synonyms* (*ν*) stop, block, limit, agree, halt, restrain, bar, dampen, delay, hinder, (*n*) control, arrest, bill, cheque, stay, 3. monitor; *synonyms* (*ν*) regulate, eavesdrop, observe, supervise, (*n*) admonisher, dame, ironclad, moderator.
- **KOHTYP 1.** outline; *synonyms* (*n*) sketch, design, edge, abstract, contour, digest, figure, frame, synopsis, (*v*) draft, line, form, describe, draw, border, **2.** profile; *synonyms* (*n*) outline, shape, silhouette, section, ambit, biography, circuit, perimeter, periphery, portrait.
- **КОНФЕДЕРАЦІЯ** confederation; *synonyms* (*n*) alliance, coalition, confederacy, association, league, union, federation, combination, fellowship, fusion, affiliation.
- конференція conference; *synonyms* (*n*) assembly, colloquy, meeting, council, consultation, interview,

- negotiation, talk, congress, discussion, gathering, session, sitting, audience, conclave.
- конфігурація configuration; synonyms (n) form, arrangement, conformation, shape, organization, outline, composition, constellation, contour, design, fashion, figure, formation, structure, class.
- **КОНФІДЕНЦІАЛЬНИЙ** confidential; *synonyms* (*adj*) close, classified, private, secret, clandestine, intimate, privileged, thick, inner, closet, bosom, familiar, hidden, inward, personal; *antonym* (*adj*) public.
- КОНФІДЕНЦІЙНИЙ 1. confidential; synonyms (adj) close, classified, private, secret, clandestine, intimate, privileged, thick, inner, closet, bosom, familiar, hidden, inward, personal; antonym (adj) public, 2. private; synonyms (adj) confidential, covert, individual, esoteric, exclusive, particular, domestic, interior, lonely, own, privy, retired, secluded, special, informal; antonyms (adj) communal, community, nationalized, official, state-owned, civic, shared, state.
- конфлікт conflict; synonyms (n) clash, combat, fight, battle, contention, contest, dispute, encounter, action, antagonism, collision, difference, disagreement, engagement, (v) collide; antonyms (n) agreement, accord, harmony, peace, (v) agree.
- KOHΦJIKTYBATИ conflict; synonyms (n) clash, combat, fight, battle, contention, contest, dispute, encounter, action, antagonism, collision, difference, disagreement, engagement, (v) collide; antonyms (n) agreement, accord, harmony, peace, (v) agree.
- конфронтація confrontation; synonyms (n) clash, encounter, conflict, fight, disagreement, resistance, engagement, fighting, meeting, opposition, showdown, skirmish, brush, challenge; antonym (n) cooperation.
- **ΚΟΗΦΡΟΗΤΥΒΑΤИ** confront; *synonyms* (v) face, front, oppose, challenge, approach, brave, defy, collate, affront, play, compare, dare, encounter, meet, resist; *antonyms* (v) avoid, evade.
- **KOHUEHTPAT** concentrate; *synonyms* (v) compress, centre, compact, condense, focus, abridge, center, congregate, consolidate, gather, listen, accumulate, collect, foreshorten, (*adj*) centralize; *antonym* (v) disperse.
- концентрація 1. concentration; synonyms (n) absorption, concentrate, application, attention, engrossment, intensity, compactness, strength, thickness, aggregation, strengthening, condensation, convergence, denseness, density; antonym (n) distraction, 2. density; synonyms (n) consistency, concentration, stupidity, firmness, solidity, massiveness, stand, crassitude, frequency, weight, assiduity, assiduousness, certainty, coarseness, complication; antonym (n) looseness.
- **КОНЦЕНТРОВАНИЙ** concentrated; *synonyms* (*adj*) strong, intense, compact, condensed, deep, heavy, solid, dense, intensive, intent, saturated, thick; *antonyms* (*adj*) dispersed, weak, uncondensed, unsaturated.
- концентрувати concentrate; *synonyms* (v) compress, centre, compact, condense, focus, abridge, center, congregate, consolidate, gather, listen, accumulate, collect, foreshorten, (*adj*) centralize; *antonym* (v) disperse.

- KOHUEHTPYBATUCЯ concentrate; synonyms (v) compress, centre, compact, condense, focus, abridge, center, congregate, consolidate, gather, listen, accumulate, collect, foreshorten, (adj) centralize; antonym (v) disperse.
- концепція 1. conception; *synonyms* (*n*) notion, concept, idea, creation, thought, view, mind, apprehension, belief, comprehension, design, fancy, image, imagination, impression; *antonym* (*n*) misconception, 2. concept; *synonyms* (*n*) conception, theory, vision, construct, opinion, perception.
- концерн concern; *synonyms* (*n*) business, affair, regard, attention, anxiety, bother, matter, company, apprehension, burden, (*v*) worry, affect, care, interest, trouble; *antonym* (*v*) unconcern.
- **концерт** concert; *synonyms* (*n*) accord, agreement, consonance, tune, performance, recital, concord, concordance, harmony, unison, (*v*) arrange, contrive, manage.
- **концесія** concession; *synonyms* (n) admission, compliance, allowance, compromise, discount, grant, agreement, charter, conceding, license, yielding, acceptance, acknowledgment, abatement, assent.
- конюшня stable; synonyms (adj) firm, permanent, reliable, constant, durable, fast, fixed, lasting, secure, stationary, enduring, hard, persistent, solid, sound; antonyms (adj) unstable, shaky, wobbly, dangerous, precarious, rickety, volatile.
- кооператив cooperative; synonyms (adj) combined, joint, accommodating, concerted, helpful, obliging, united, accommodative, communal, conjunct, conjunctive, (n) collective, association, commune; antonyms (adj) uncooperative, individual.
- кооперативний cooperative; synonyms (adj) combined, joint, accommodating, concerted, helpful, obliging, united, accommodative, communal, conjunct, conjunctive, (n) collective, association, commune; antonyms (adj) uncooperative, individual.
- **KOOHEPAUIS** cooperation; *synonyms* (*n*) concurrence, aid, assistance, association, teamwork, help, partnership, alliance; *antonyms* (*n*) stubbornness, competition, confrontation, rivalry.
- **КООРДИНУВАННЯ** orientation; *synonyms* (n) bearing, direction, adjustment, course, introduction, instruction, druthers, information, initiation, predilection, preference, temper, training, assimilation, coordination.
- **KOIIAHHЯ** digging; *synonyms* (*n*) dig, excavation, barb, gibe, jab, jibe, region, shaft, shot, slam.
- **КОПАТИ** dig; *synonyms* (*v*) jab, delve, prod, burrow, comprehend, excavate, investigate, probe, apprehend, (*n*) poke, excavation, gibe, punch, stab, taunt; *antonym* (*n*) compliment.
- копіювати сору; *synonyms* (n) imitation, trace, transcription, forgery, (v) counterfeit, imitate, ape, duplicate, model, pattern, follow, echo, fake, mimic, record; *antonym* (n) original.
- копія 1. copy; *synonyms* (*n*) imitation, trace, transcription, forgery, (*v*) counterfeit, imitate, ape, duplicate, model, pattern, follow, echo, fake, mimic, record; *antonym* (*n*) original, 2. counterpart;

- synonyms (n) match, twin, companion, complement, copy, double, equivalent, mate, parallel, pendant, facsimile, fellow, image, likeness, opposite, 3. edition; synonyms (n) version, print, circulation, issue, number, adaptation, book, rendering, translation, variation, compilation, run, anthology, collection, indiction, 4. transcription; synonyms (n) transcript, recording, arrangement, reproduction, action, agreement, arranging, notes, organisation, organization, placement, preparation, proceedings, settlement, system.
- KOPA crust; synonyms (n) bark, cheekiness, covering, gall, impertinence, peel, shell, skin, coating, encrustation, impudence, incrustation, insolence, rind, (v) coat
- корабель 1. ship; synonyms (n) boat, ferry, craft, bottom, (v) dispatch, send, forward, transport, consign, carry, embark, move, transfer, post, charge, 2. vessel; synonyms (n) ship, container, duct, jar, vas, bowl, canal, pan, receptacle, basin, tube, watercraft, bottle, pipe, 3. boat; synonyms (n) yacht, scull, dinghy, vessel, vehicle, shallop, schooner, sailboat, bateau, sauceboat, truck, aircraft, baiter, bucket, (v) cruise.
- **КОРАБЛЕВОДІННЯ** navigation; *synonyms* (n) guidance, sailing, steering, seafaring, shipping, travel, flight, aviation, glide, gliding, pilotage, piloting, routing, sailplaning, soaring.
- **KOP/IEFA/JET** chorus; *synonyms* (n) ensemble, refrain, acclamation, song, tune, (v) choir, chant, (adv) descant, glee, madrigal, catch.
- кордон 1. boundary; synonyms (n) border, bound, limit, edge, area, end, perimeter, periphery, barrier, brink, fringe, frontier, line, margin, outskirts, 2. border; synonyms (n) extremity, bed, boundary, brim, skirt, limits, rand, confine, (v) verge, abut, adjoin, hem, surround, approach, butt; antonyms (n) middle, (v) center, 3. frontier; synonyms (n) stint, backwoods, (adj) terminal, 4. bound; synonyms (v) leap, bounce, circumscribe, pounce, rebound, restrict, skip, vault, define, (n) spring, jump, compass, hop, recoil, limitation; antonym (adj) free, 5. line; synonyms (n) cord, file, house, breed, course, family, lineage, field, ancestry, cable, crease, row, stock, trace, (v) order.
- коректний correct (виправляти); synonyms (adj) right, accurate, appropriate, becoming, nice, precise, proper, (v) adjust, amend, castigate, chastise, chasten, better, remedy, (n) true; antonyms (adj) incorrect, false, faulty, inappropriate, mistaken, improper, (v) wrong, spoil.
- **KOPEKTYBATU** adjust; *synonyms* (*v*) temper, accommodate, adapt, align, acclimatize, balance, fit, fix, reconcile, regulate, set, alter, arrange, (*adj*) dress, (*n*) square.
- корекція correction; synonyms (n) amendment, adjustment, alteration, castigation, chastisement, discipline, redress, modification, emendation, improvement, punishment, revision, editing, rebuke, rectification; antonym (n) fabrication.
- **KOPEJISILIS** correlation; *synonyms* (*n*) association, connection, relationship, bond, correspondence, correlativity, interrelation, link, comparison, equivalence, similarity, (*adi*) mutuality.

- кореспондент correspondent; *synonyms* (n) journalist, reporter, equivalent, writer, (*adj*) analogous, concordant, parallel, corresponding, equal, appropriate, alike, conformable, (v) congruous, consonant, accordant.
- KOPECHOHAEHTCLKUM correspondent; synonyms (n) journalist, reporter, equivalent, writer, (adj) analogous, concordant, parallel, corresponding, equal, appropriate, alike, conformable, (v) congruous, consonant, accordant.
- KOPECHOHAEHUIA correspondence; synonyms (n) conformity, accord, agreement, communication, connection, coincidence, concord, affinity, analogy, congruity, equality, equivalence, parallel, parallelism, resemblance; antonyms (n) difference, asymmetry, dissimilarity.
- корж cake; *synonyms* (n) bar, block, pastry, lump, pie, (v) harden, set, (adj) clot, fix.
- коридор 1. corridor; *synonyms* (*n*) aisle, hall, lobby, hallway, lane, vestibule, artery, alley, alleyway, path, portico, way, (*v*) passage, **2**. passage; *synonyms* (*n*) course, channel, corridor, gangway, journey, entry, entrance, duct, opening, avenue, citation, excerpt, extract, movement, paragraph.
- корисний 1. useful; synonyms (adj) profitable, beneficial, handy, helpful, practical, advantageous, convenient, effective, valuable, functional, clever, constructive, efficient, gainful, serviceable; antonyms (adj) useless, worthless, ineffective, 2. helpful; synonyms (adj) favorable, friendly, useful, beneficent, accommodating, instrumental, kindly, obliging, auspicious, generous, rewarding, good, (n) benevolent, (v) adjuvant, auxiliary; antonyms (adj) unhelpful, uncooperative, 3. profitable; synonyms (adj) productive, fruitful, lucrative, desirable, economic, fat, expedient, salutary, edifying, fertile, commercial, healthy, moneymaking, usable, worthwhile; antonyms (adj) unprofitable, dependent, 4. good; synonyms (adj) able, benefit, delicious, right, capable, excellent, fine, nice, superior, well, agreeable, gentle, (n) benign, advantage, gain; antonyms (adj) disobedient, poor, wicked, unpleasant, (n) evil, bad, 5. available; synonyms (adj) accessible, free, possible, attainable, obtainable, open, ready, uncommitted, vacant, valid, (adv) present, (n) applicable; antonyms (adj) unavailable, occupied, suppressed, concealed, engaged, 6. beneficial; synonyms (adj) propitious, wholesome, curative, genial, healing, kind, salubrious, healthful, lucky, nutritious, positive, therapeutic; antonyms (adj) disadvantageous, harmful, 7. practicable; synonyms (adj) feasible, operable, achievable, doable, executable, viable, workable, likely, realizable, performable; antonym (adj) impossible.
- **корисність 1.** utility; *synonyms* (n) use, usefulness, service, value, avail, purpose, advantage, help, helpfulness, benefit, effectiveness, expediency, profit, convenience, (*adj*) functional, **2.** availability; *synonyms* (n) accessibility, handiness, approachability, availableness, opening, supply.
- **користуватися** 1. profit; *synonyms* (*n*) gain, benefit, account, good, produce, earnings, increase, dividend, interest, (*v*) net, advance, avail, earn, help, (*adf*)

- advantage; *antonym* (v) lose, **2**. enjoy; *synonyms* (v) appreciate, bask, have, hold, possess, relish, delight, experience, like, love, own, rejoice, revel, devour, take; *antonym* (v) dislike, **3**. participate; *synonyms* (v) partake, engage, enter, join, share, figure, appear, collaborate, common, confer, cooperate, deal, discourse, embark, enrol.
- **користувач** user; *synonyms* (*n*) consumer, buyer, exploiter, addict, customer, freeloader, idler, moocher, occupant, patron, scrounger, shopper, slacker, stealer, (*v*) take; *antonym* (*n*) dealer.
- користь 1. profit; synonyms (n) gain, benefit, account, good, produce, earnings, increase, dividend, interest, (v) net, advance, avail, earn, help, (adj) advantage; antonym (v) lose, 2. use; synonyms (n) custom, practice, habit, application, function, (v) exercise, employ, employment, expend, profit, exploit, occupy, operate, spend, (adj) usage; antonym (v) conserve, 3. benefit; synonyms (n) assistance, favor, reward, service, use, welfare, behalf, expediency, allowance, asset, blessing, bonus, (v) aid, assist, pay; antonyms (n) disadvantage, drawback, loss, (v) harm, 4. good; synonyms (adj) able, delicious, right, efficient, capable, excellent, fine, nice, superior, well, advantageous, agreeable, desirable, generous, (n) benign; antonyms (adj) disobedient, poor, wicked, unpleasant, (n) evil, bad, 5. usefulness; synonyms (n) utility, convenience, practicality, effectiveness, efficacy, value, handiness, importance, point, (adj) worth, merit; antonym (n) uselessness, 6. utility; synonyms (n) usefulness, purpose, helpfulness, serviceableness, (adj) functional, 7. advantage; synonyms (n) privilege, lead, preponderance, virtue, perk, boot, leverage, preference, superiority, vantage, pull, facility, amenity, ascendancy, (v) behoof; antonyms (n) detriment, difficulty, 8. sake; synonyms (n) object, design, reason, ground, saki, (v) motive, cause.
- **KOPHTHC9** obey; *synonyms* (v) follow, comply, mind, heed, listen, keep, fulfill, hear, conform, serve, mark, observe, respect, submit; *antonyms* (v) disobey, break, defy.
- коричневий brown; *synonyms* (*adj*) chocolate, swarthy, tanned, (*n*) brunette, brownness, tan, (*v*) sear, cook, fry; *antonym* (*adj*) pale.
- **КОРІВНИК** barn; *synonyms* (*n*) shed, store, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (*adj*) foul, unclean.
- **КОРІНЕЦЬ** back; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, backward, (*n*) rear, (*adj*) assist, (*v*) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) face, (*v*) front, oppose, advance.
- **КОРІННИЙ 1.** fundamental; *synonyms* (*adj*) central, essential, basic, cardinal, key, rudimentary, chief, crucial, elementary, important, indispensable, inherent, (*n*) base, basis, root; *antonyms* (*adj*) minor, (*n*) secondary,
  - 2. radical; *synonyms* (*adj*) extremist, exhaustive, extreme, revolutionary, primary, ultra, drastic, primordial, basal, fanatical, bottom, (*n*) foundation, origin, group, nihilist; *antonyms* (*adj*) conventional, old-fashioned. (*n*) moderate, conservative, traditionalist.

- корінь 1. root; *synonyms* (*n*) base, foundation, origin, basis, radical, radix, cause, derivation, reason, beginning, bottom, core, essence, (*v*) establish, dig, **2**. radical; *synonyms* (*adj*) extremist, basic, exhaustive, extreme, revolutionary, primary, ultra, drastic, primordial, basal, root, fanatical, militant, (*n*) group, nihilist; *antonyms* (*adj*) conventional, old-fashioned, (*n*) moderate, conservative, traditionalist.
- **KOPM** feed; *synonyms* (v) eat, dine, nurture, browse, board, diet, encourage, nourish, fatten, consume, feast, (n) aliment, food, provender, fare; *antonym* (v) starve.
- κοροδκα 1. box; synonyms (n) basket, cage, chest, package, booth, blow, carton, case, container, crate, envelope, (v) cuff, buffet, beat, fight; antonym (v) unbox,
  2. case; synonyms (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, action, (adj) patient.
- корова 1. cow; synonyms (v) bully, intimidate, awe, browbeat, daunt, terrorize, discourage, frighten, overawe, threaten, abash, 2. cattle (худоба); synonyms (n) beast, cows, stock, kine, livestock, oxen, sheep, antelopes, bison, camels, crowd, mob, public, barb, bidet, 3. neat; synonyms (adj) adroit, elegant, clear, natty, tidy, graceful, dainty, clean, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, methodical, nifty, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered.
- королева queen; synonyms (n) empress, king, lady, sovereign, monarch, fag, faggot, fairy, pansy, queer, ace, ruler.
- **королівство 1**. kingdom; *synonyms* (*n*) country, domain, realm, dominion, empire, state, nation, territory, area, department, land, monarchy, reign, **2**. realm; *synonyms* (*n*) kingdom, field, region, arena, ground, commonwealth, province, demesne, district, orbit, range, sphere, principality, soil, world.
- королівський royal; synonyms (adj) regal, imperial, majestic, magnificent, kingly, noble, princely, purple, sovereign, stately, grand, grandiose, great, imposing, monarchical.
- король king; *synonyms* (n) emperor, mogul, sovereign, chief, baron, crown, magnate, ruler, tycoon, majesty, rex, monarch, power, ace.
- **κοροнa** crown; *synonyms* (n) top, apex, cover, crest, peak, pinnacle, summit, kingdom, acme, corona, coronal, (ν) cap, complete, consummate, culminate.
- **коронація** coronation; *synonyms* (n) accession, enthronement, enthronisation, enthronization, installation, investiture.
- **коронер** coroner; *synonyms* (n) edile, paritor, portreeve, crowner.
- **коронувати** crown; *synonyms* (*n*) top, apex, cover, crest, peak, pinnacle, summit, kingdom, acme, corona, coronal, (*v*) cap, complete, consummate, culminate.
- короткий 1. short; *synonyms* (*adj*) brief, concise, scarce, brusque, close, curt, sharp, compendious, laconic, abrupt, deficient, diminutive, inadequate, insufficient, lacking; *antonyms* (*adj*) long, tall, high, lengthy, 2. brief; *synonyms* (*adj*) short, abridge, little, summary, transient, short-lived, abbreviated, fleeting, succinct, (*n*) abstract, digest, epitome, report, (*y*) compact, notify;

- *antonyms* (*adj*) long-drawn-out, long-winded, permanent, time-consuming.
- KOPOTKO 1. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, (v) compact, stop, conclude, (adv) by, about, (n) end, finish, conclusion; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open, start, 2. short; synonyms (adj) brief, concise, scarce, brusque, close, curt, sharp, compendious, laconic, abrupt, deficient, diminutive, inadequate, insufficient, lacking; antonyms (adj) long, tall, high, lengthy, 3. shortly; synonyms (adv) presently, briefly, soon, immediately, abruptly, concisely, curtly, short, anon, now, brusquely, directly, quickly, rapidly, (adj) forthwith.
- KOPOTKOCTPOKOBИЙ short; synonyms (adj) brief, concise, scarce, brusque, close, curt, sharp, compendious, laconic, abrupt, deficient, diminutive, inadequate, insufficient, lacking; antonyms (adj) long, tall, high, lengthy.
- **КОРОТКОТЕРМІНОВИЙ** short; *synonyms* (*adj*) brief, concise, scarce, brusque, close, curt, sharp, compendious, laconic, abrupt, deficient, diminutive, inadequate, insufficient, lacking; *antonyms* (*adj*) long, tall, high, lengthy.
- корпоративний corporate; synonyms (adj) collective, common, incorporate, incorporated, united, bodied, corporal, aggregate, combined, associated, bodily, commercial, confederate, embodied, incarnate.
- корпорація 1. corporation; synonyms (n) association, belly, business, company, concern, body, corp, firm, organization, partnership, club, agency, establishment, foundation, group, 2. incorporation; synonyms (n) annexation, inclusion, union, amalgamation, consolidation, embodiment, merger, absorption, affiliation, integration, mixture, synthesis, unification, 3. fellowship; synonyms (n) brotherhood, community, companionship, communion, familiarity, camaraderie, society, acquaintance, family, fraternity, corporation, confederation, league, (adj) intercourse, intimacy, 4. college; synonyms (n) faculty, school, academy, institute, institution, university, (adj) academic.
- **EXAMPLE 2** Corps; *synonyms* (*n*) brigade, company, army, battalion, detachment, regiment, troop, crew, party, band, column, force, garrison, host, battalia, **2**. hull; *synonyms* (*n*) crust, shell, hulk, husk, structure, body, glume, (*v*) skin, (*adj*) torso, trunk, bole, **3**. cabinet; *synonyms* (*n*) case, closet, locker, press, cupboard, chamber, console, sideboard, board, council.
- **KOPT** COURT; synonyms (n) forum, bar, close, field, tribunal, judicatory, passage, judge, courtroom, courtyard, (v) woo, attract, invite, romance, flatter; antonyms (v) avoid, shun.
- корупція corruption; *synonyms* (*n*) contamination, depravity, adulteration, pollution, bribery, filth, infection, taint, vitiation, canker, blight, foulness, impurity, contagion, (*adj*) shuffle; *antonyms* (*n*) purification, decency, honesty, incorruptness.
- **Koca** queue; *synonyms* (n) cue, rank, row, string, tail, rear, wake, catchword, flap, (v) line, align, adjust, aline, dress, find.

- **КОСИНЕЦЬ 1.** angle (кут); *synonyms* (n) hook, incline, view, aspect, cant, corner, outlook, perspective, pitch, position, viewpoint, (v) slant, lean, tilt, fish, **2**. triangle (трикутник); *synonyms* (n) trigon, trilateral, reed, trident, triennium, trionym, triplopia, tripod, trireme, triseme, triskele, triskelion, trisula, wheel, xylophone.
- **КОСМІЧНИЙ** space; *synonyms* (*n*) length, gap, opening, period, place, scope, void, margin, distance, emptiness, extent, interval, latitude, location, range.
- **KOCMOC 1.** space; *synonyms* (n) length, gap, opening, period, place, scope, void, margin, distance, emptiness, extent, interval, latitude, location, range, **2.** universe; *synonyms* (n) nature, creation, world, cosmos, population, macrocosm, space, globe, existence.
- **KOCTIOM 1.** suit; *synonyms* (*n*) lawsuit, plea, action, case, (*v*) agree, fit, correspond, accommodate, adapt, answer, become, match, meet, please, adjust, **2.** costume; *synonyms* (*n*) attire, clothing, apparel, clothes, dress, garb, suit, outfit, uniform, disguise, drapery, garment, garments, gown, (*v*) clothe, **3.** toilet; *synonyms* (*n*) bathroom, lavatory, can, lav, privy, stool, costume, bath, guise, raiment, commode, crapper, pot, potty, throne.
- котедж cottage; *synonyms* (*n*) cabin, bungalow, crib, hut, lodge, villa, chalet, house.
- **KOTEJI** boiler; *synonyms* (*n*) kettle, furnace, heater, banality, evaporator, seether, cistern, container, kettleful, kiln, oven, reservoir, timpani, tympani, tympanum.
- KOTEJIOK bowler; *synonyms* (*n*) derby, batsman. KOTUPYBAHHЯ quotation; *synonyms* (*n*) citation, extract, mention, excerpt, passage, reference, quote, example, price, figure, instance, allusion, credit.
- **KOTHTH 1.** roll; *synonyms* (*n*) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (*v*) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow, **2.** bowl; *synonyms* (*n*) basin, pot, plate, container, hollow, stadium, arena, depression, bowlful, trough, (*v*) hurl, roll, toss, troll, trundle.
- **KOTHTUCЯ** roll; *synonyms* (*n*) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (*v*) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow.
- **КОТРИЙ** who (хто); *synonyms* (*pron*) one, (*adj*) which, what.
- **KOXAHA** gill; *synonyms* (n) branchia, lamella, leech, sweetheart, (v) rivulet, gullet, rillet, rill, (adj) adze, ax, hatchet, mattock, pick, pickax.
- **KOXAHELL** lover; *synonyms* (*n*) dear, darling, beau, devotee, fan, admirer, buff, love, beloved, amorist, man, pet, sweetheart, gallant, boyfriend.
- коханий 1. beloved; *synonyms* (*adj*) darling, precious, favorite, loved, pet, cherished, sweet, (*n*) dear, love, dearest, honey, sweetheart, agreeable, idol, lover, **2**. darling; *synonyms* (*adj*) beloved, costly, pretty, adorable, (*n*) deary, angel, treasure, duck, ducky, favourite, flame, **3**. lover; *synonyms* (*n*) beau, devotee, fan, admirer, buff, amorist, man, gallant, boyfriend, enthusiast. follower, afficionado.
- кохання 1. love (кохати, любов); synonyms (n) desire, affection, dear, fondness, liking, benevolence, charity, attachment, beloved, darling, devotion, honey,

- (v) cherish, enjoy, like; *antonyms* (n) abhorrence, hatred, aversion, (v) hate, dislike, abhor, **2**. affection; *synonyms* (n) affect, affectionateness, disease, feeling, heart, kindness, love, tenderness, admiration, care, complaint, condition, emotion, esteem, (v) regard.
- кохати love (кохання, любов); synonyms (n) desire, affection, dear, fondness, liking, benevolence, charity, attachment, beloved, darling, devotion, honey, (v) cherish, enjoy, like; antonyms (n) abhorrence, hatred, aversion, (v) hate, dislike, abhor.
- кохаю love (кохання, кохати, любов); *synonyms* (*n*) desire, affection, dear, fondness, liking, benevolence, charity, attachment, beloved, darling, devotion, honey, (*v*) cherish, enjoy, like; *antonyms* (*n*) abhorrence, hatred, aversion, (*v*) hate, dislike, abhor.
- **КОЧОВИЙ** wandering; *synonyms* (*v*) unsettled, (*adj*) itinerant, nomadic, stray, erratic, rambling, vagrant, errant, vagabond, migratory, lost, roaming, (*n*) roving, peregrination, travel.
- кошик basket; *synonyms* (*n*) basketful, bassinet, cradle, gondola, case, coffin, handbasket, hoop, leap, ped, pottle, stomach, whisket, bound, corbeille.
- **кошмар** nightmare; *synonyms* (*n*) dream, incubus, fantasy, terror, bugbear, fancy, trial, vision.
- **KOIIITM** funds; *synonyms* (n) finances, capital, assets, cash, means, money, treasury, funding, purse, treasure, provision, resources, savings, wealth.
- коштовний 1. costly; synonyms (adj) expensive, dear, precious, valuable, extravagant, high, luxurious, pricey, rich, sumptuous, invaluable, beloved, plush, priceless, pricy; antonyms (adj) cheap, worthless, 2. valuable; synonyms (adj) costly, estimable, beneficial, helpful, useful, worthy, admirable, important, profitable, choice, good, rewarding, serviceable, advantageous, (n) treasure; antonym (adj) useless, 3. expensive; synonyms (adj) lavish, overpriced, exclusive, fine, exorbitant, splendid; antonyms (adj) inexpensive, reasonable, 4. precious; synonyms (adj) cherished, golden, inestimable, exquisite, cute, noble, goodly, adorable, sweet, valued, delicate, gorgeous, (n) darling, (adv) extremely, preciously.
- **KOIIITOBHOCTI** jewellery; *synonyms* (*n*) jewel, jewelry. **KOIIITOPUC** 1. estimate; *synonyms* (*n*) calculation, appraisal, assessment, (*v*) compute, consider, count, esteem, guess, weigh, account, appraise, assess, computation, conjecture, estimation; *antonym* (*v*) calculate, 2. calculation; *synonyms* (*n*) reckoning, analysis, arithmetic, deliberation, discretion, estimate, forecast, anticipation, projection, expectation, figuring, (*adj*) circumspection, prudence.
- **КОШТУВАТИ** 1. COST; *synonyms* (*n*) price, charge, amount, expense, toll, damage, disbursement, expenditure, fee, payment, rate, worth, sacrifice, budget, (*v*) be, 2. be; *synonyms* (*v*) exist, live, act, consist, constitute, represent, cost, follow, form, lie, remain, rest, stay, subsist, (*n*) stand.
- краватка tie; *synonyms* (*n*) band, connection, draw, lace, association, relationship, sleeper, (*v*) link, bond, attach, bind, join, knot, connect, fasten; *antonyms* (*v*) disconnect, untie, undo.
- **КРАДЕНИЙ** stolen; *synonyms* (*adj*) purloined, furtive, misbegotten, secret, sly, stealthy.

- крадіжка 1. theft; synonyms (n) robbery, larceny, stealing, burglary, thievery, embezzlement, thieving, depredation, latrociny, stealth, 2. robberty; synonyms (n) rape, looting, pillage, plunder, theft, holdup, freebooting, pillaging, spoil, (v) despoliation, spoliation, 3. steal; synonyms (v) abstract, lift, purloin, creep, filch, misappropriate, pilfer, pinch, rob, snatch, sneak, plagiarize, slip, thieve, (n) bargain, 4. burglary; synonyms (n) housebreaking, felony, crime, appropriation, caper, filching, incident, mugging, pilferage, pilfering, pinching, pocketing, prowl, raid, safecracking.
- **КРАЄВИД 1.** view; *synonyms* (*n*) look, sight, judgment, opinion, scene, idea, outlook, prospect, thought, aspect, (*v*) regard, observe, see, consider, eye, **2.** landscape; *synonyms* (*n*) scenery, view, vista, ground, lookout, panorama, perspective, picture, **3.** outlook; *synonyms* (*n*) expectation, anticipation, hope, expectancy, angle, attitude, future, position, slant, viewpoint, vision, mentality, spectacle, feeling, (*v*) landscape.
- країна 1. country; synonyms (n) state, nation, home, land, area, commonwealth, kingdom, place, realm, region, soil, territory, (adj) rural, rustic, public; antonyms (n) city, (adj) urban, 2. soil; synonyms (n) ground, dirt, grime, dust, (v) smudge, blot, contaminate, dirty, pollute, mire, blemish, defile, foul, mould, smear; antonym (v) clean, 3. nation (нація); synonyms (n) country, community, people, nationality, tribe, clan, folk, republic, race, breed, federation, society, 4. region; synonyms (n) field, district, domain, part, circuit, division, locality, neighborhood, province, quarter, belt, range, department, expanse, section, 5. land; synonyms (n) estate, empire, demesne, property, grounds, (v) disembark, debark, alight, get, drop, arrive, bring, down, perch, secure: antonym (adj) aquatic.
- край 1. edge; synonyms (n) boundary, margin, verge, blade, brink, extremity, advantage, bank, brim, butt, corner, limit, (v) border, bound, hem; antonyms (n) center, (v) middle, 2. border; synonyms (n) fringe, bed, skirt, limits, barrier, rand, confine, edging, (v) edge, abut, adjoin, surround, approach, enclose, flank, 3. verge; synonyms (n) rim, side, threshold, term, bounds, point, scepter, sceptre, wand, frontier, periphery, (v) bend, incline, tend, trend, 4, area (плоша); synonyms (n) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood. section, sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land, 5. margin; synonyms (n) circumference, perimeter, allowance, leeway, scope, lip, brow, borderline, freedom, play, room, shore, space, tolerance, demarcation, 6. land; synonyms (n) ground, country, soil, kingdom, estate, nation, realm, state, empire, (v) disembark, debark, alight, get, drop, arrive; antonym (adj) aquatic, 7. tail; synonyms (n) rear, shadow, behind, posterior, rump, stub, backside, (v) follow, pursue, track, trail, chase, dog, tag, (adj) back; antonyms (v) head, front, 8. list; synonyms (n) catalog, catalogue, file, inclination, index, schedule, calendar, enumeration, inventory, record, (v) lean, tilt, enter, enumerate, itemize, 9. side; synonyms (n) faction, direction, face, part, hand, aspect, facet, page, position, wing, quarter, surface, (v) party, (adj) nearby, lateral; antonym (adj)

- distant, **10**. ridge; *synonyms* (*n*) crest, ledge, hill, shelf, dune, swelling, peak, projection, ridgepole, wrinkle, button, peg, (*v*) crease, fold.
- крайній 1. extreme; synonyms (adj) deep, excessive, enormous, immoderate, intense, severe, supreme, terrible, ultimate, utmost, uttermost, drastic, extraordinary, (n) edge, end; antonyms (adj) middle, reasonable, near, (n) mild, moderate, slight, 2. marginal; synonyms (adj) borderline, border, peripheral, fringe, bare, minor, negligible, unimportant, fringy, hardscrabble.
- KPAЙHICTЬ 1. emergency; synonyms (n) crisis, contingency, exigency, accident, need, pinch, casualty, disaster, demand, circumstance, emergence, predicament, adventure, catastrophe, (adj) extra, 2. extreme; synonyms (adj) deep, excessive, enormous, immoderate, intense, severe, supreme, terrible, ultimate, utmost, uttermost, drastic, extraordinary, (n) edge, end; antonyms (adj) middle, reasonable, near, (n) mild, moderate, slight.
- крамниця 1. shop (магазин); synonyms (n) business, store, factory, plant, emporium, market, workshop, house, outlet, workplace, (v) betray, purchase, grass, browse, denounce, 2. store; synonyms (n) hoard, shop, heap, reserve, supply, accumulation, (v) stock, accumulate, garner, amass, bank, cache, keep, preserve, collect.
- кран tap; synonyms (n) pat, dab, hit, bang, strike, stroke, touch, blow, (v) knock, rap, broach, bug, beat, eavesdrop, exploit.
- **KPAHATU** drop; *synonyms* (v) fall, decrease, deposit, dribble, droop, abandon, cast, dip, discard, dismiss, drip, ebb, jump, (n) decline, collapse; *antonyms* (v) rise, increase, lift, (n) growth.
- крапка 1. dot; *synonyms* (n) point, speck, spot, dash, splash, atom, bead, drop, mote, stain, (v) mark, sprinkle, disperse, splotch, (adj) iota, 2. point; *synonyms* (n) place, grade, peak, nib, edge, aim, article, degree, dot, phase, apex, detail, (v) head, direct, level.
- крапля 1. drop; synonyms (v) fall, decrease, deposit, dribble, droop, abandon, cast, dip, discard, dismiss, drip, ebb, jump, (n) decline, collapse; antonyms (v) rise, increase, lift, (n) growth, 2. tear; synonyms (n) split, rupture, rent, (v) break, rip, crack, pull, rend, lacerate, race, run, rush, slit, rive, cleave.
- **kpaca** beauty; *synonyms* (n) splendor, attractiveness, beaut, charm, loveliness, pulchritude, dish, elegance, grace, grandeur, looker, magnificence, peach, stunner; *antonym* (n) ugliness.
- красивий 1. beautiful; synonyms (adj) attractive, goodlooking, bright, beauteous, fine, handsome, lovely, picturesque, pleasant, pretty, striking, sweet, adorned, ornate, dainty; antonyms (adj) ugly, unattractive, 2. lovely; synonyms (adj) beautiful, charming, delightful, enchanting, lovable, alluring, adorable, elegant, endearing, exquisite, fair, gorgeous, graceful, gracious, cute; antonyms (adj) hideous, terrible, unpleasant.
- **красти** steal; *synonyms* (*v*) abstract, lift, purloin, creep, filch, misappropriate, pilfer, pinch, plunder, rob, snatch, sneak, plagiarize, slip, (*n*) bargain.

- KPACYHЯ beauty (краса); synonyms (n) splendor, attractiveness, beaut, charm, loveliness, pulchritude, dish, elegance, grace, grandeur, looker, magnificence, peach, stunner; antonym (n) ugliness.
- KPATEP chimney; synonyms (n) stack, flue, shaft, smokestack, vent, gully, main, nostril, nozzle, tap, throat, trachea, weasand, aperture, escape.
- KPAX 1. crash; synonyms (n) clash, collision, smash, clank, clatter, fall, impact, (v) bang, collapse, break, clang, crack, dash, plunge, ram, 2. disruption; synonyms (n) breakdown, dislocation, rupture, breach, disturbance, interruption, disintegration, gap, turmoil, commotion, disorganization, chaos, discontinuance, (v) split, (adj) diruption, 3. collapse; synonyms (n) crash, subsidence, bust, debacle, defeat, demise, (v) slump, buckle, crumble, crumple, faint, flop, burst, deflate, disintegrate, 4. frustration; synonyms (n) failure, disappointment, letdown, vexation, setback, check, disillusionment, anger, irritation, annoyance, dissatisfaction, foiling.
- **kpame 1**. better; *synonyms* (*adj*) superior, (*n*) bettor, (*v*) amend, improve, best, mend, recover, advance, ameliorate, emend, reform, enhance, exceed, excel, refine; *antonyms* (*adj*) lesser, (*adv*) worse, (*n*) inferior, (*v*) worsen, **2**. rather; *synonyms* (*adv*) quite, enough, fairly, pretty, moderately, considerably, instead, kinda, preferably, relatively, somewhat, comparatively, reasonably, sooner; *antonym* (*adv*) extremely, **3**. preferably; *synonyms* (*adv*) rather, earlier, better, (*adj*) before, cheerfully, eagerly, former, gladly, joyfully, prior
- кращий 1. better; synonyms (adj) superior, (n) bettor, (v) amend, improve, best, mend, recover, advance, ameliorate, emend, reform, enhance, exceed, excel, refine; antonyms (adj) lesser, (adv) worse, (n) inferior, (v) worsen, 2. superior; synonyms (adj) senior, dominant, better, exceptional, predominant, elder, great, arrogant, chief, eminent, excellent, high, higher, lofty, proud; antonyms (adj) humble, poor, (n) subordinate, subscript.
- **кредит** credit; *synonyms* (*n*) credence, appreciation, belief, commendation, recognition, reputation, advance, account, acknowledgment, confidence, (*v*) believe, accredit, ascribe, assign, attribute; *antonyms* (*n*) cash, (*v*) debit, discredit.
- кредитор creditor; synonyms (n) debtee, lienor.
- кредитувати credit; synonyms (n) credence, appreciation, belief, commendation, recognition, reputation, advance, account, acknowledgment, confidence, (v) believe, accredit, ascribe, assign, attribute; antonyms (n) cash, (v) debit, discredit.
- **KPE/IO** creed; *synonyms* (n) belief, conviction, gospel, religion, credo, faith, denomination, doctrine, persuasion, credenda.
- крейда chalk; synonyms (n) score, trace, clod, clot, gravel, mold, subsoil, clay, cledge, (v) mark, pastel, whiten, charcoal, (adj) ivory, lily.
- крейсувати cruise; *synonyms* (*n*) journey, voyage, trip, expedition, jaunt, passage, tour, stroll, (*v*) sail, navigate, travel, coast, cross, course, go.

- **крем** cream; synonyms (n) pick, ointment, prime, balm, top, liniment, elite, fat, salve, unguent, (adj) flower, milk, (v) best, skim, ream.
- **КРЕСАЛО** steel (СТАЛЬ); *synonyms* (*n*) harden, blade, brand, brace, foil, fortify, sword, invigorate, strengthen, (*adj*) iron, adamant, (*v*) nerve, temper, gird.
- креслення 1. drawing; synonyms (n) draft, drafting, delineation, picture, plan, cartoon, depiction, draftsmanship, draught, draw, painting, chart, design, figure, illustration, 2. description; synonyms (n) account, type, brand, explanation, kind, definition, narration, portrayal, recital, report, representation, sort, statement, (adj) class, character, 3. plot; synonyms (n) conspiracy, lot, scheme, graph, patch, action, device, (v) intrigue, cabal, plat, conspire, contrive, concoct, engineer, devise.
- **KPECJIUTU** trace; *synonyms* (*n*) line, shadow, spot, clue, dash, hint, indication, mark, shade, sign, suggestion, touch, (*v*) track, hunt, pursue.
- **KPECJISP** designer; *synonyms* (n) architect, couturier, creator, drawer, engineer, inventor, maker, decorator, (v) artist, projector; *antonym* (adj) off-the-rack.
- **КРИВА** curve; *synonyms* (n) bend, crook, bow, arc, curvature, kink, round, bender, (v) curl, turn, arch, hook, wind, distort, (adj) flex.
- **КРИВАВИЙ** bloody; *synonyms* (adj) gory, bleeding, bloodthirsty, damned, murderous, raw, sanguinary, sanguine, sanguineous, savage, rare, (adv) damn; *antonym* (adj) bloodless.
- **КРИВДА** injustice (несправедливість); *synonyms* (n) inequity, iniquity, evil, unfairness, wrong, bigotry, crime, grievance, inequality, oppression, prejudice, wickedness, (adj) injury, harm, damage; *antonyms* (n) justice, evenhandedness, fairness.
- кривдник offender; synonyms (n) culprit, criminal, delinquent, malefactor, convict, crook, felon, wrongdoer, villain, reprobate.
- **криг**а ice; *synonyms* (n) frosting, glass, hoarfrost, icing, sparkler, frappe, rime, (v) frost, cool, refrigerate, fan.
- **КРИЖАНИЙ** icy; *synonyms* (*adj*) frozen, cold, freezing, frigid, frosty, glacial, arctic, chill, chilly, wintry, aloof, distant, gelid, standoffish, hostile; *antonyms* (*adj*) warm, hot
- криза 1. crisis; *synonyms* (n) exigency, conjuncture, difficulty, emergency, juncture, pinch, circumstance, dilemma, situation, strait, depression, extremity, head, pass, predicament, 2. depression; *synonyms* (n) basin, cavity, dejection, decline, dent, dip, hole, hollow, impression, slump, trench, trough, drop, recess, collapse; *antonyms* (n) cheerfulness, happiness, boom, elation, encouragement, inflation, outcrop.
- крик 1. cry; *synonyms* (n) shout, bark, scream, yell, clamor, roar, bay, crying, (v) call, bellow, shriek, weep, exclaim, howl, moan; *antonyms* (v) laugh, whisper, 2. shout; *synonyms* (v) cry, bawl, hollo, hail, holler, hoop, whoop, yelp, proclaim, (n) cheer, halloo, outcry, screech, exclamation, wail.
- крикет cricket; *synonyms* (*n*) tennis, (*adj*) equitable. крики shouting; *synonyms* (*n*) clamor, noise, cheering, assembly, bellowing, company, disturbance, (*adj*) crying,

- yelling, howling, vociferous, clamant, egregious, exigent, fantastic.
- **КРИКНУТИ** сту; *synonyms* (n) shout, bark, scream, yell, clamor, roar, bay, crying, (v) call, bellow, shriek, weep, exclaim, howl, moan; *antonyms* (v) laugh, whisper.
- крило wing; synonyms (n) annex, arm, fender, limb, pinion, flank, extension, pennon, feather, faction, sail, shelter, branch, (v) fly, soar.
- **КРИМІНАЛЬНИЙ 1.** criminal; *synonyms* (*adj*) guilty, illegal, sinful, wicked, condemnable, (*n*) convict, crook, culprit, hoodlum, malefactor, delinquent, felon, gangster, lawbreaker, (*v*) wrong; *antonyms* (*adj*) lawabiding, legal, **2.** penal; *synonyms* (*adj*) punitive, punishable, corrective, castigatory, disciplinary, penalizing, chastening, punishing, reformatory, retaliatory.
- криниця well (добре); synonyms (adv) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, good, (adj) healthy, fit, shaft, sound, robust, (n) fountain, spring, pit, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous.
- **КРИСТАЛІЧНИЙ** crystal; *synonyms* (n) glass, quartz, gem, (adj) clear, bright, pebble, translucent, crag, rock, stone.
- критерій 1. criterion; *synonyms* (*n*) benchmark, measure, norm, test, canon, mark, criterium, gauge, pattern, principle, proof, rule, touchstone, 2. canon; *synonyms* (*n*) doctrine, law, regulation, code, criterion, formula, statute, creed, prebendary.
- критик critic; *synonyms* (*n*) connoisseur, commentator, judge, censor, reviewer, evaluator, pundit, critique, censurer, criticiser, (*adj*) critical; *antonym* (*n*) supporter.
- критика 1. criticism; *synonyms* (*n*) critique, commentary, blame, review, animadversion, attack, censure, comment, denunciation, disapproval, knock, rebuke, stricture, complaint, objection; *antonyms* (*n*) praise, approval, admiration, compliment, 2. critique; *synonyms* (*n*) criticism, notice, judgment, analysis, critic, report, article.
- **КРИТИКАН** critic (критик); *synonyms* (n) connoisseur, commentator, judge, censor, reviewer, evaluator, pundit, critique, censurer, criticiser, (adj) critical; *antonym* (n) supporter.
- **KPUTUKYBATU** attack; *synonyms* (n) incursion, thrust, aggression, fit, onset, onslaught, seizure, (v) assault, assail, attempt, aggress, charge, invade, raid, accuse; *antonyms* (n) defense, (v) defend, protect, retreat.
- критичний 1. critical; synonyms (adj) acute, decisive, delicate, important, pressing, severe, ticklish, urgent, vital, crucial, dangerous, fastidious, grave, imperative, (v) censorious; antonyms (adj) complimentary, trivial, positive, flattering, insignificant, approving, unimportant, 2. crucial; synonyms (adj) critical, essential, deciding, fundamental, indispensable, key, main, major, momentous, weighty, basic, central, (v) categorical, cross, cruciform.
- **Κρμχίτκα** dot; *synonyms* (n) point, speck, spot, dash, splash, atom, bead, drop, mote, stain, (ν) mark, sprinkle, disperse, splotch, (adj) iota.

- крихітний 1. wee; synonyms (adj) little, teeny, tiny, minute, small, puny, teensy, diminutive, weeny, bittle, bitty, exiguous, (n) pee, (v) piss, make; antonym (adj) enormous, 2. tiny; synonyms (adj) infinitesimal, midget, petite, petty, slight, baby, insignificant, miniature, bantam, short, minor, trifling, trivial, cramped, (phr) minuscule; antonyms (adj) huge, gigantic, vast, large.
- крихкий fragile; synonyms (adj) dainty, delicate, frail, breakable, brittle, flimsy, weak, faint, feeble, fine, slim, frangible, insubstantial, shaky, slender; antonyms (adj) strong, unbreakable, substantial, sturdy, permanent, robust.
- кричати 1. cry; synonyms (n) shout, bark, scream, yell, clamor, roar, bay, crying, (v) call, bellow, shriek, weep, exclaim, howl, moan; antonyms (v) laugh, whisper, 2. shout; synonyms (v) cry, bawl, hollo, hail, holler, hoop, whoop, yelp, proclaim, (n) cheer, halloo, outcry, screech, exclamation, wail.
- **КРИЧУЩИЙ 1.** crying; *synonyms* (v) exigent, instant, urgent, (n) weeping, sniveling, lamentation, (*adj*) clamant, insistent, pressing, imperative, blatant, flagrant, glaring, howling, shouting, **2.** noisy; *synonyms* (*adj*) disorderly, boisterous, clamorous, loud, vociferous, rowdy, shrill, strident, tumultuous, turbulent, vocal, bustling, confused, harsh, rambunctious; *antonyms* (*adj*) quiet, peaceful, silent, calm, tranquil.
- кришка 1. lid; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, top, chapeau, eyelid, hat, closure, restriction, covercle, palpebra, **2**. cover; *synonyms* (*v*) coat, conceal, bury, cloak, (*n*) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield, spread; *antonyms* (*v*) reveal, expose, uncover, **3**. cap; *synonyms* (*n*) bonnet, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, coif, cork, (*v*) beat, limit, surpass, better, complete, crown.
- **кришталевий** crystal; *synonyms* (n) glass, quartz, gem, (adj) clear, bright, pebble, translucent, crag, rock, stone.
- кришталь crystal; *synonyms* (n) glass, quartz, gem, (*adj*) clear, bright, pebble, translucent, crag, rock, stone.
- крізь across; *synonyms* (*prep*) athwart, cross, overthwart, (*adv*) over, crossways, crosswise, (*adj*) crossed; *antonyms* (*adv*) along, (*adj*) uncrossed.
- кріль rabbit (кролик); synonyms (n) coney, cony, hare, lapin, shuttle, coward, bacterium, das, dassie, delinquent, hyrax, pika, (adi) warren.
- Kpim 1. except; synonyms (conj) but, unless, (prep) save, excepting, excluding, (v) exclude, demur, omit, exempt, object, reserve, saving, (n) bar, without, (adv) besides; antonym (v) include, 2. besides; synonyms (adv) also, furthermore, moreover, too, again, additionally, anyway, else, therewithal, beyond, (prep) except, on, beside, (adj) more, likewise, 3. but; synonyms (conj) while, (adv) alone, only, though, barely, however, merely, simply, yet, exclusively, if, just, nevertheless, nonetheless, solely, 4. save; synonyms (v) deliver, economize, rescue, conserve, free, hoard, keep, maintain, preserve, liberate, protect, redeem, retain, defend, accumulate; antonyms (v) spend, squander, waste.
- κρίςπο 1. armchair; synonyms (n) fauteuil, elbowchair, 2. chair; synonyms (n) chairman, bench, chairperson,

- president, throne, couch, chairwoman, professorship, shop, (*v*) moderate, conduct, lead.
- **κpit** mole; *synonyms* (n) breakwater, jetty, freckle, bulwark, groyne, mol, spy, blemish, counterspy, groin, growth, (*adj*) mound, barrow, hillock, (ν) embankment.
- **кров** blood; synonyms (n) ancestry, birth, gore, descent, family, kindred, lineage, origin, beau, bloodshed, consanguinity, coxcomb, exquisite, extraction, (adj) humor
- **KPOÏTM** cut; *synonyms* (*v*) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (*n*) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, lengthen, (*n*) addition, extension.
- крок 1. step; synonyms (n) degree, measure, stage, walk, gait, gradation, level, rank, act, footprint, footstep, move, stride, (v) pace, proceeding, 2. pace; synonyms (n) rate, rapidity, speed, tempo, tread, celerity, fastness, run, beat, cadence, carriage, footfall, quickness, swiftness, (v) step; antonym (n) slowness.
- KPOKYBATU 1. step; synonyms (n) degree, measure, stage, walk, gait, gradation, level, rank, act, footprint, footstep, move, stride, (v) pace, proceeding, 2. pace; synonyms (n) rate, rapidity, speed, tempo, tread, celerity, fastness, run, beat, cadence, carriage, footfall, quickness, swiftness, (v) step; antonym (n) slowness.
- кролик rabbit (кріль); synonyms (n) coney, cony, hare, lapin, shuttle, coward, bacterium, das, dassie, delinquent, hyrax, pika, (adi) warren.
- **Кролятник** warren; *synonyms* (*n*) burrow, channel, den, hole, home, labyrinth, lair, maze, nest, passageway, subway, cave, hideaway, (*adj*) hydra, rabbit.
- **КРОНа** CrOWn; *synonyms* (*n*) top, apex, cover, crest, peak, pinnacle, summit, kingdom, acme, corona, coronal, (*v*) cap, complete, consummate, culminate.
- круг 1. circle (коло); *synonyms* (n) round, association, band, compass, ring, field, range, beat, circuit, company, gang, scope, (v) turn, whirl, encircle, 2. ring (кільце); *synonyms* (n) jingle, loop, rim, annulus, arena, clique, (v) circle, call, peal, echo, resound, reverberate, gird, buzz, ding.
- круглий 1. round; synonyms (adv) about, around, (adj) circular, plump, entire, chubby, complete, (n) circle, bout, ring, beat, circuit, (v) compass, turn, gird; antonyms (adj) slim, sharp, 2. circular; synonyms (adj) round, annular, circinate, globular, orbicular, rotund, rounded, spherical, (n) advertisement, bill, handbill, brochure, publication, bulletin, flier; antonym (adj) square
- кругляк roll; synonyms (n) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (v) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow.
- круговий circular; synonyms (adj) round, annular, circinate, globular, orbicular, rotund, rounded, spherical, (n) advertisement, bill, handbill, brochure, publication, bulletin, flier; antonym (adj) square.
- **КРУГОВОРОТ** circle (коло); *synonyms* (n) round, association, band, compass, ring, field, range, beat, circuit, company, gang, scope, (v) turn, whirl, encircle.
- **κρyro3ip 1**. view; *synonyms* (n) look, sight, judgment, opinion, scene, idea, outlook, prospect, thought, aspect, (v) regard, observe, see, consider, eye, **2**. horizon;

- synonyms (n) perspective, purview, reach, skyline, view, vista, amphitheater, arena, boundary, circle, eyeshot, distance, panorama, setting, theater, 3. outlook; synonyms (n) expectation, lookout, anticipation, hope, expectancy, angle, attitude, future, position, slant, viewpoint, vision, mentality, spectacle, (v) landscape, 4. ken; synonyms (v) descry, know, distinguish, discover, espy, perceive, recognize, understand, behold, discern, (n) acquaintance, cognizance, grasp, experience, espial.
- **KPYFOM** about; *synonyms* (*prep*) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, (*adv*) around, approximately, almost, nearly, most, roughly, in, nearby, (*adj*) some, near; *antonyms* (*prep*) exactly, precisely.
- **KPYFOOGEPTAHHЯ** circulation; *synonyms* (n) dissemination, diffusion, distribution, currency, delivery, dispersal, dispersion, gyration, revolution, rotation, round, spread, spreading, turn, airing.
- **кругообіг 1.** circulation; *synonyms* (n) dissemination, diffusion, distribution, currency, delivery, dispersal, dispersion, gyration, revolution, rotation, round, spread, spreading, turn, airing, 2. circuit; *synonyms* (n) beat, area, excursion, compass, cycle, district, loop, perimeter, periphery, route, ambit, (n) circle, tour, trip, journey.
- кружляння spin; *synonyms* (*n*) turn, twirl, whirl, revolution, roll, ride, eddy, (*v*) revolve, twist, run, drive, reel, fabricate, gyrate, invent.
- **KPyÏ3** cruise; *synonyms* (n) journey, voyage, trip, expedition, jaunt, passage, tour, stroll, (v) sail, navigate, travel, coast, cross, course, go.
- KPУПНИЙ 1. big (великий); synonyms (adj) ample, major, heavy, important, significant, thick, sturdy, generous, adult, bad, burly, considerable, great, hefty, (adv) large; antonyms (adj) little, puny, (adv) small, (syn) tiny, 2. coarse; synonyms (adj) barbarous, boorish, brutal, crude, gross, rough, vulgar, bawdy, blunt, broad, common, earthy, harsh, rude, uncivilized; antonyms (adj) refined, smooth, sophisticated.
- крутий steep; synonyms (adj) high, abrupt, excessive, exorbitant, outrageous, sheer, (v) douse, immerse, soak, dip, drench, imbue, infuse, saturate, impregnate; antonyms (adj) gentle, gradual.
- **КРУТИТИ 1.** twist; *synonyms* (*n*) twine, wind, spin, twirl, entwine, (*v*) turn, bend, distort, curl, coil, contort, deform, curve, pervert, wrench; *antonyms* (*v*) straighten, untwist, **2**. spin; *synonyms* (*n*) whirl, revolution, roll, ride, eddy, (*v*) revolve, twist, run, drive, reel, fabricate, gyrate, invent, narrate, pivot.
- **KPYTUTUCЯ** spin; *synonyms* (*n*) turn, twirl, whirl, revolution, roll, ride, eddy, (*v*) revolve, twist, run, drive, reel, fabricate, gyrate, invent.
- **крутіння** twist; *synonyms* (n) twine, wind, spin, twirl, entwine, (v) turn, bend, distort, curl, coil, contort, deform, curve, pervert, wrench; *antonyms* (v) straighten, untwist.
- **KPYTO** abruptly; *synonyms* (*adv*) suddenly, precipitously, short, bluntly, brusquely, curtly, gruffly, rudely, sharply, shortly, unawares; *antonyms* (*adv*) gently, gradually, civilly.
- **круча** cliff; *synonyms* (*n*) bluff, precipice, hill, mountain, promontory, (*adj*) wall.

- **ΚΡΙΟΥΟΚ** hook; *synonyms* (n) clasp, crook, claw, crotchet, draw, lure, trap, anchor, (ν) catch, bend, fasten, hitch, button, ensnare, attach.
- **KYFOK** cup; *synonyms* (*n*) chalice, basin, trophy, destiny, fate, bowl, cupful, glass, portion, bleed.
- кувати beat; *synonyms* (v) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (n) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; *antonym* (v) lose.
- **куди** where; *synonyms* (*adv*) there, here, wherever, whither, anywhere, wherein, anyplace, whereas, somewhere, (*conj*) but, while, (*pron*) everywhere, (*n*) point, spot, situation.
- **куди-небудь** anywhere; *synonyms* (*adv*) anyplace, everyplace.
- **KY3EH** cousin; *synonyms* (n) nephew, friend, companion, allied.
- **KY3HHA** cousin; *synonyms* (*n*) nephew, friend, companion, allied.
- **кукурудза** corn; *synonyms* (*n*) maize, clavus, cereals, callus, wheat, grain, commonplace, (*v*) feed, keep.
- кулак fist; *synonyms* (n) hand, grip, index, (v) finger, paw, neaf, neif, wrist.
- **KYJIYAPH** lobby; *synonyms* (*n*) hall, foyer, anteroom, hallway, lounge, vestibule, aisle, antechamber, corridor, entry, lane, passage, alley, artery, (*v*) buttonhole.
- **ΚΥΛΙΒΜΙΗΑЦΙЯ** climax; *synonyms* (*n*) apex, top, acme, culmination, orgasm, zenith, height, meridian, pinnacle, summit, extremity, apogee, (*ν*) peak, crown, culminate; *antonym* (*ν*) dip.
- культ 1. cult; synonyms (n) craze, persuasion, fad, faith, fashion, rage, religion, sect, denomination, creed, vogue, church, trend, camp, division, 2. worship; synonyms (n) adoration, respect, adulation, veneration, cult, admiration, devotion, exaltation, homage, (v) praise, honor, revere, reverence, adore, glorify; antonym (v) hate, 3. religion (релігія); synonyms (n) piety, holiness.
- KYJIbTHBALII9 cultivation; synonyms (n) agriculture, civilization, culture, farming, refinement, development, growth, breeding, education, gentility, sophistication, tillage, acculturation, finish; antonym (n) neelect
- культивування cultivation; synonyms (n) agriculture, civilization, culture, farming, refinement, development, growth, breeding, education, gentility, sophistication, tillage, acculturation, finish; antonym (n) neglect.
- KYJIbTUBYBATU rear; synonyms (adj) back, erect, after, (n) posterior, tail, backside, behind, bottom, (v) breed, nurture, raise, educate, foster, nurse, build; antonyms (adj) fore, (n) front.
- **культура** culture; *synonyms* (*n*) civilization, breeding, cultivation, acculturation, education, learning, tillage, erudition, courtesy, enlightenment, farming, instruction, refinement, agriculture, civilisation.
- **КУЛЬТУРНИЙ** cultural; *synonyms* (*adj*) ethnic, educational, enriching, racial, adorning, advancing, artistic, beautifying, beneficial, broadening, civilizing, constructive, corrective, developmental, dignifying.
- куля 1. bullet; *synonyms* (n) shot, round, missile, pellet, projectile, slug, carcass, grenade, stone, ammunition,

- arrow, (adj) globule, spherule, bulb, drop, 2. ball (M'sq); synonyms (n) globe, shell, bead, baseball, bullet, dance, football, lump, orb, party, sphere, blob, chunk, clod, clump, 3. sphere; synonyms (n) region, range, area, domain, province, realm, ball, circle, department, ring, arena, compass, field, rank, extent.
- кумедний funny; synonyms (adj) comical, amusing, droll, eccentric, facetious, fishy, peculiar, strange, diverting, comic, curious, entertaining, farcical, humorous, (adv) funnily; antonyms (adj) serious, grave.
- **КУМУЛЯТИВНИЙ** cumulative; *synonyms* (*adj*) accumulative, collective, increasing, aggregate, total, amassed, growing, summative, additional, combined, additory, advancing, augmenting, chain, heaped.
- купа 1. heap; synonyms (n) pile, stack, accumulation, collection, amass, group, lot, mass, mound, bulk, bunch, congeries, (v) aggregate, bank, collect, 2. stack: synonyms (n) rick, bundle, hill, mountain, shock, hoard. haystack, batch, chimney, sheaf, smokestack, (v) heap, load, pack, store, 3. pile; synonyms (n) jam, nap, wad, lump, multitude, fortune, edifice, down, flock, fur, mint, (v) accumulate, crowd, throng, mob, 4. accumulation; synonyms (n) stock, accretion, accrual, accruement, reserve, deposit, addition, aggregation, assemblage, assembly, compilation, concentration, congestion, increase, (v) gain; antonym (n) shortage, 5. cluster; synonyms (n) clump, agglomeration, gang, knot, tuft, party, band, clustering, crew, gathering, (v) huddle, gather, assemble, concentrate, congregate; antonym (v) disperse, 6. mass (maca); synonyms (adj) block, (n) cluster, magnitude, majority, amount, body, volume, hunk, chunk, drift, extent, measure, plenty, quantity, (v)
- **KYIIE** compartment; *synonyms* (*n*) cell, division, cabin, cubicle, separation, bay, booth, cubbyhole, (*v*) apartment, partition.
- **KYTIELL6** merchant; *synonyms* (n) dealer, seller, trader, merchandiser, retailer, shopkeeper, storekeeper, vendor, broker, trafficker, wholesaler, (v) chapman; *antonym* (n) buyer.
- **КУПИТИ 1**. buy (купувати); *synonyms* (*v*) acquire, bribe, take, shop, accept, believe, get, admit, attain, corrupt, hold, (*n*) bargain, purchase, acquisition, deal; *antonym* (*v*) sell, **2**. purchase (купувати); *synonyms* (*n*) leverage, acquirement, grip, (*v*) buy, obtain, contract, gain, procure; *antonym* (*n*) transaction.
- **КУШВЛЯ** purchase (купувати); *synonyms* (n) acquisition, bargain, leverage, acquirement, grip, hold, (v) buy, get, obtain, contract, acquire, bribe, gain, procure, take; *antonyms* (n) transaction, (v) sell.
- **купол** dome; *synonyms* (*n*) cupola, arch, roof, cover, bean, noggin, arena, (*adj*) campanile, column.
- KYHOH COUPON; synonyms (n) voucher, certificate, order, ticket, debenture, dividend, draft, warrant, advertisement, coin, verifier.
- купування purchase (купувати); synonyms (n) acquisition, bargain, leverage, acquirement, grip, hold, (v) buy, get, obtain, contract, acquire, bribe, gain, procure, take; antonyms (n) transaction, (v) sell.
- **купувати 1**. buy; *synonyms* (*v*) acquire, bribe, take, shop, accept, believe, get, admit, attain, corrupt, hold, (*n*)

- bargain, purchase, acquisition, deal; *antonym* (*v*) sell, **2**. purchase; *synonyms* (*n*) leverage, acquirement, grip, (*v*) buy, obtain, contract, gain, procure; *antonym* (*n*) transaction.
- курити smoke; *synonyms* (*n*) fumes, fog, mist, perfume, smoking, smoulder, (*v*) fume, reek, fumigate, puff, exhale, cure, burn, smolder, (*adj*) smudge.
- **КУРЙОЗНИЙ** curious; *synonyms* (*adj*) abnormal, funny, interested, odd, peculiar, strange, unusual, bizarre, extraordinary, inquiring, inquisitive, quaint, queer, quizzical, remarkable; *antonyms* (*adj*) normal, incurious, ordinary.
- курка chicken (курча); *synonyms* (*n*) chick, cock, coward, fowl, hen, crybaby, nestling, poultry, weakling, wimp, (*adj*) yellow, chickenhearted.
- **kypc 1.** course; *synonyms* (n) stream, flow, bearing, career, current, path, road, route, track, channel, circuit, class, method, (v) run, chase, **2.** heading; *synonyms* (n) caption, drift, head, title, course, direction, tack, name, chief, header, leading, line, way, aim, gallery, **3.** rate; *synonyms* (n) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (v) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put.
- курча chicken (курка); synonyms (n) chick, cock, coward, fowl, hen, crybaby, nestling, poultry, weakling, wimp, (adj) yellow, chickenhearted.
- **кусати** bite; synonyms (n) taste, bit, cheat, morsel, (v) sting, nip, chew, cut, pinch, burn, eat, erode, gnaw, hurt, munch.
- **KYCOK** piece; *synonyms* (n) cut, division, fragment, part, article, component, composition, hunk, lump, patch, bit, block, chunk, coin, constituent.
- KyT 1. angle; synonyms (n) hook, incline, view, aspect, cant, corner, outlook, perspective, pitch, position, viewpoint, (v) slant, lean, tilt, fish, 2. corner; synonyms (n) bend, angle, turn, coign, dilemma, hole, niche, nook, predicament, quandary, recess, jam, fork, plight, fix.
- **ΚΥΤΟΚ** CORNET; *synonyms* (n) bend, angle, turn, coign, dilemma, hole, niche, nook, predicament, quandary, recess, jam, fork, plight, fix.
- Kyxap 1. cook; synonyms (n) chef, (v) boil, bake, brew, make, prepare, concoct, falsify, grill, poach, roast, simmer, stew, coddle, heat, 2. chef; synonyms (n) cook, baker.
- кухарка cook; *synonyms* (n) chef, (v) boil, bake, brew, make, prepare, concoct, falsify, grill, poach, roast, simmer, stew, coddle, heat.
- **кухня** kitchen; *synonyms* (*n*) cookroom, basement, offices, pantry, scullery, stomach.
- куховарити cook; *synonyms* (n) chef, (v) boil, bake, brew, make, prepare, concoct, falsify, grill, poach, roast, simmer, stew, coddle, heat.
- кухоль 1. mug; synonyms (n) countenance, pot, jug, chump, cup, face, kisser, sucker, tankard, victim, fool, mugful, (v) rob, grimace, attack, 2. pot; synonyms (n) caldron, boiler, can, bucket, belly, cannabis, commode, container, flowerpot, grass, heap, pan, (v) bottle, (adj) deal, marijuana, 3. jug; synonyms (n) jar, vase, jugful, pail, pitcher, tub, (v) jail, gaol, immure, imprison, lag, incarcerate.

- **КУШТУВАТИ** taste; *synonyms* (n) bit, flavor, liking, morsel, penchant, appetite, drink, drop, fondness, gusto, (v) relish, savor, sample, smack, discernment; *antonyms* (n) dislike, tastelessness.
- кущ bush; *synonyms* (n) shrub, bushing, wild, chaparral, hedge, jungle, plant, scrub, wilderness.
- **Kiobet** vale; *synonyms* (n) valley, bottom, gorge, basin, cave, cavern, cove, glade, grove, slade, strath; *antonym* (n) hill.

## П

- **лабораторія** laboratory; *synonyms* (*n*) lab, factory, course, elaboratory, operatory, (*adj*) experimental, alembic, stillatory.
- лава 1. bench; synonyms (n) settle, chair, court, terrace, workbench, bank, bar, judicatory, board, couch, form, judiciary, table, tribunal, 2. bank (банк); synonyms (n) dam, coast, slope, store, limit, stack, bluff, heap, hill, riverside, (v) embankment, gradient, deposit, mound, rely; antonym (v) withdraw.
- лавка bench; synonyms (n) settle, chair, court, terrace, workbench, bank, bar, judicatory, board, couch, form, judiciary, table, tribunal.
- лавр bay; synonyms (n) alcove, bark, recess, cry, harbor, fiord, sound, cove, embayment, gulf, (adj) brown, (v) yap, roar, bellow, howl.
- лагідний 1. gentle; synonyms (adj) clement, calm, easy, friendly, soft, affable, balmy, kind, mild, tame, feeble, amiable, benign, bland, (n) benevolent; antonyms (adj) caustic, cruel, fierce, harsh, loud, violent, rough, abrupt, hardhearted, heavy, sarcastic, sheer, steep, 2. soft; synonyms (adj) gentle, light, limp, delicate, quiet, slack, loose, faint, flabby, flaccid, frail, lenient, pliant, smooth, (v) low; antonyms (adj) hard, firm, hoarse, solid, stiff, alcoholic, shrill, strong, 3. mild; synonyms (adj) kindly, gracious, docile, humble, meek, sweet, fine, indulgent, moderate, temperate, compliant, flat, merciful, benignant, humane; antonyms (adj) intense, extreme, pungent, severe, sharp, spicy, barbed, great, hot, incisive, passionate, powerful, scathing, wintry.
- лагідно gently; synonyms (adv) gradually, mildly, tenderly, soft, delicately, kindly, lightly, meekly, quietly, softly; antonyms (adv) abruptly, cruelly, fiercely, forcefully, harshly, severely, sharply, violently, intensely, roughly.
- лагодження repair; synonyms (n) fix, overhaul, (v) remedy, mend, patch, redress, correct, cure, compensate, doctor, renovate, restore, heal, amend, go; antonym (v) break.
- лагодити 1. repair; synonyms (n) fix, overhaul, (v) remedy, mend, patch, redress, correct, cure, compensate, doctor, renovate, restore, heal, amend, go; antonym (v) break, 2. adjust; synonyms (v) temper, accommodate, adapt, align, acclimatize, balance, fit, reconcile, regulate, set, alter, arrange, change, (adj) dress, (n) square.
- лад order; *synonyms* (n) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (v)

- direct, commission, arrange, call; *antonyms* (n) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (v) disorder, request.
- ладан thus; *synonyms* (*adv*) therefore, then, consequently, so, hence, accordingly, thence, ergo, thusly.
- лазер laser; synonym (n) beam.
- **Лаконічний** neat; *synonyms* (*adj*) adroit, elegant, clear, natty, tidy, graceful, dainty, clean, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, methodical, nifty, (v) compact; *antonyms* (*adj*) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered.
- ламаний broken; synonyms (v) broke, (adj) tame, torn, busted, imperfect, intermittent, rough, rugged, ruined, uneven, disjointed, incomplete, confused, cracked, crushed; antonyms (adj) constant, unbroken, intact, whole, wild.
- ламання demolition; synonyms (n) annihilation, demolishment, destruction, devastation, obliteration, ruin, razing, sabotage, death, disposal, bulldozing, destroyer, downfall, end, explosion; antonym (n) construction.
- ламати break; *synonyms* (v) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (n) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; *antonyms* (v) repair, obey, honor, mend, (n) continuation.
- ламкий fragile; synonyms (adj) dainty, delicate, frail, breakable, brittle, flimsy, weak, faint, feeble, fine, slim, frangible, insubstantial, shaky, slender; antonyms (adj) strong, unbreakable, substantial, sturdy, permanent, robust.
- лампа lamp; synonyms (n) light, look, beacon, view, glance, alfalfa, glimpse, lucern, (v) behold, regard, perceive, gape, gaze, inspect, observe.
- лан field (поле); synonyms (n) arena, area, battlefield, domain, ground, place, battleground, compass, court, department, discipline, range, realm, section, sphere.
- ландшафт landscape; *synonyms* (n) outlook, scene, scenery, sight, view, vista, ground, lookout, panorama, perspective, picture, (v) prospect.
- ланка link; synonyms (n) connection, join, joint, bond, concatenation, (v) combine, tie, connect, couple, associate, attach, bridge, fasten, relate, yoke; antonym
- лантух 1. bag; *synonyms* (n) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (v) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net, 2. sack; *synonyms* (n) sac, poke, rape, (v) pillage, bag, plunder, discharge, dismiss, despoil, fire, ransack, rob, rifle, can, loot; *antonym* (v) hire.
- ланцюг chain; *synonyms* (n) string, network, tether, rope, cable, band, bond, concatenation, handcuff, line, range, row, run, (v) bind, fetter; *antonym* (v) release.
- **Ланцюжок** chain; *synonyms* (*n*) string, network, tether, rope, cable, band, bond, concatenation, handcuff, line, range, row, run, (*v*) bind, fetter; *antonym* (*v*) release.
- ланч lunch; *synonyms* (n) breakfast, luncheon, meal, tiffin, dejeuner, brunch, refection, banquet, bever, feast, mealtime, spread, (v) dine, eat, sup.
- лапа 1. hand (рука); synonyms (n) deal, aid, applause, employee, paw, worker, (v) deliver, give, pass, commit, bestow, afford, communicate, reach, grant, 2. pad;

- *synonyms* (n) cushion, apartment, digs, wadding, (v) line, inflate, expand, bolster, stuff, wad, aggrandize, amplify, embroider, magnify, enlarge.
- ларьок stand; *synonyms* (v) endure, stall, undergo, live, suffer, tolerate, prop, erect, hold, (n) attitude, booth, rack, base, pedestal, position; *antonyms* (v) sit, lie.
- AACKA 1. affection; synonyms (n) affect, charity, attachment, fondness, affectionateness, disease, feeling, heart, kindness, liking, love, tenderness, admiration, care, (v) regard; antonym (n) hatred, 2. kindness; synonyms (n) benevolence, clemency, compassion, courtesy, generosity, affection, benignity, consideration, cordiality, favor, friendliness, gentleness, goodness, grace, graciousness; antonyms (n) unkindness, callousness, cruelty, miserliness, nastiness, spite, unfriendliness, maliciousness.
- **Ласкавий** soft; *synonyms* (*adj*) gentle, easy, light, limp, balmy, delicate, quiet, slack, loose, clement, faint, flabby, flaccid, (v) feeble, low; *antonyms* (*adj*) hard, firm, harsh, loud, hoarse, rough, solid, stiff, alcoholic, shrill, strong.
- латентний latent; synonyms (adj) covert, potential, secret, dormant, hidden, inactive, possible, smoldering; antonym (adj) active.
- латка patch; *synonyms* (n) darn, fleck, mend, plot, bed, blot, freckle, bit, blotch, dapple, field, maculation, (v) piece, botch, fix.
- **латунний** brass; *synonyms* (*n*) boldness, face, cheek, nerve, administration, arrogance, insolence, effrontery, impertinence, (*v*) audacity, assurance, front, hardihood, impudence, (*adj*) bronze.
- латунь brass; *synonyms* (*n*) boldness, face, cheek, nerve, administration, arrogance, insolence, effrontery, impertinence, (*v*) audacity, assurance, front, hardihood, impudence, (*adj*) bronze.
- лафет carriage; *synonyms* (n) attitude, transport, behavior, conveyance, air, coach, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, (v) bearing.
- **ΠΑΒΤΤΙCS** damn; synonyms (adj) blasted, cursed, blame, damned, (v) condemn, bloody, curse, beshrew, blaspheme, imprecate, cuss, slam, cast, convict, (n) darn; antonym (v) bless.
- лебідь swan; synonyms (n) cygnet, aberdevine, cushat, ringdove, (v) ramble, roam, rove, wander, affirm, assert, aver, avow, cast, drift, range.
- **Лев** lion; *synonyms* (n) celebrity, cat, curiosity, luminary, spectacle, name, notable, leader, magnate, (adj) hero, worthy, somebody, tiger, eminent, noted.
- легалізація validation; synonyms (n) confirmation, proof, substantiation, verification, establishment, justification, approval, corroboration, administration, basis, brass, constitution, demonstration, ecesis, explanation.
- легальний legal; *synonyms* (*adj*) lawful, sound, valid, juridical, constitutional, judicial, permissible, rightful, true, correct, sanctioned, official, (*v*) allowable, legitimate, licit; *antonyms* (*adj*) illegal, unlawful, bogus.
- легенда legend; synonyms (n) caption, fable, fiction, tale, account, myth, story, title, tradition, chronicle, folklore, romance, narrative, saga, yarn.

- легендарний fabulous; synonyms (adj) incredible, mythical, fabled, legendary, amazing, fab, imaginary, marvelous, mythological, spectacular, terrific, wonderful, unreal, brilliant, excellent; antonym (adj)
- **легені 1**. lights; *synonyms* (*n*) light, illumination, highlights, **2**. lung.
- легкий 1. easy; synonyms (adj) comfortable, convenient, gentle, familiar, graceful, lenient, light, clear, contented, cozy, casual, comfy, cushy, (adv) soft, easily; antonyms (adj) difficult, arduous, demanding, hard, laborious, burdensome, particular, strenuous, tough, awkward, formal, testing, uneasy, 2. light; synonyms (adj) fair, facile, easy, faint, flimsy, (n) flame, brightness, daylight, (v) fire, kindle, inflame, glow, ignite, dismount, illuminate; antonyms (adj) fattening, nauseating, (n) dark, darkness, gloom, shade, night, (v) extinguish, darken, (alt sp) heavy, 3. slight; synonyms (adj) slender, thin, fragile, delicate, feeble, fine, lean, (n) scorn, disdain, (v) disregard, insult, neglect, ignore, affront, cut; antonyms (adj) considerable, major, fat, intense, obvious, severe, thickset, wide.
- **JEFRICTS 1.** facility; *synonyms* (*n*) ability, dexterity, adroitness, ease, readiness, artifice, aptitude, deftness, faculty, freedom, installation, knack, lightness, (*adj*) competence, proficiency, **2**. ease; *synonyms* (*n*) comfort, convenience, rest, aid, leisure, relief, repose, satisfaction, (*v*) alleviate, assuage, relieve, allay, facilitate, relax, (*adj*) smooth; *antonyms* (*n*) difficulty, discomfort, awkwardness, formality, (*v*) aggravate,
- JEFKO 1. easily; synonyms (adv) lightly, comfortably, readily, well, easy, handily, simply, smoothly, swimmingly, naturally; antonyms (adv) awkwardly, hardly, 2. readily; synonyms (adv) easily, promptly, soon, quick, freely, gladly, quickly, cheerfully, eagerly, pronto, willingly, commonly, openly, 3. lightly; synonyms (adv) gently, light, airily, softly, flippantly, quietly, slightly, delicately, thinly; antonyms (adv) heavily, seriously, thickly.
- легковажний 1. careless; synonyms (adj) inconsiderate, cursory, forgetful, haphazard, inattentive, insouciant, reckless, hasty, imprudent, inadvertent, incautious, lax, listless, (v) heedless, (adv) thoughtless; antonyms (adj) careful, cautious, prudent, attentive, diligent, meticulous, thorough, thoughtful, guarded, methodical, strict, wary, 2. daft; synonyms (adj) crazy, wacky, bonkers, demented, foolish, nutty, balmy, inane, barmy, batty, dotty, haywire, idiotic, insane, insensate; antonym (adj) sensible.
- ледачий lazy; synonyms (adj) indolent, idle, inert, drowsy, inactive, shiftless, dull, faineant, remiss, slothful, slow, sluggish, leisurely, sluggard, tardy; antonyms (adj) energetic, diligent, active.
- ледве 1. hardly; synonyms (adv) scarcely, just, rarely, seldom, hard, little, narrowly, scarce, severely, slightly, (adj) barely; antonym (adv) completely, 2. scarcely; synonyms (adv) hardly, only, merely, almost, scantily, scantly, exactly, precisely, 3. barely; synonyms (adv) simply, purely, solely, absolutely, 4. narrowly; synonyms (adv) closely, straitly, strictly, carefully,

- accurately, intimately, personally, streite, contractedly, meticulously, painstakingly, parsimoniously, penuriously, scrutinizingly, sparingly; *antonym* (adv) generally.
- леді lady; synonyms (n) dame, gentlewoman, female, ma'am, matron, wife, woman, noble, (v) squaw; antonym (n) man
- ледь 1. hardly; *synonyms* (*adv*) scarcely, just, rarely, seldom, hard, little, narrowly, scarce, severely, slightly, (*adj*) barely; *antonym* (*adv*) completely, 2. scarcely; *synonyms* (*adv*) hardly, only, merely, almost, scantily, scantly, exactly, precisely, 3. just; *synonyms* (*adv*) newly, simply, (*adj*) fair, right, correct, equitable, accurate, honest, impartial, fit, good, reasonable, righteous, upright, appropriate; *antonyms* (*adj*) unfair, biased, wrong.
- **Лежання** lying; *synonyms* (*adj*) deceitful, false, deceptive, mendacious, untrue, misleading, fraudulent, recumbent, (*n*) fabrication, falsehood, lie, deceit, dishonesty, duplicity, prevarication; *antonyms* (*adj*) honest, (*n*) honesty.
- **Лежати** lie; *synonyms* (v) consist, repose, falsify, belong, couch, (n) fabrication, falsehood, falsity, fib, fiction, rest, untruth, bluff, counterfeit, deceit; *antonyms* (v) stand, (n) truth.
- лезо 1. blade; synonyms (n) vane, beau, knife, brand, foil, leaf, razor, shaft, steel, sword, 2. edge; synonyms (n) boundary, margin, verge, blade, brink, extremity, advantage, bank, brim, butt, corner, limit, (v) border, bound, hem; antonyms (n) center, (v) middle.
- **Лейтмотив** motif; *synonyms* (n) design, idea, motive, pattern, subject, theme, figure, text, matter, tune, badge, base, chorus, composition, crest.
- **ΠΕΚΆΠΟ** curve; *synonyms* (n) bend, crook, bow, arc, curvature, kink, round, bender, (ν) curl, turn, arch, hook, wind, distort, (adj) flex.
- лексика vocabulary; *synonyms* (n) dictionary, lexicon, wordbook, words, language.
- лексикон lexicon; synonyms (n) dictionary, vocabulary, glossary, wordbook, book, context, jargon, language, list.
- **Лектор 1.** lecturer; *synonyms* (*n*) instructor, lector, professor, reader, teacher, coach, orator, preacher, speaker, trainer, tutor, educator, **2**. reader; *synonyms* (*n*) lecturer, proofreader, reviewer, subscriber, compositor, printer.
- лекція 1. discourse; *synonyms* (*n*) address, converse, lecture, sermon, talk, colloquy, conversation, harangue, discussion, homily, language, tongue, (*v*) chat, speak, confer, **2**. lecture; *synonyms* (*n*) discourse, reprimand, speech, oration, censure, declaim, lesson, reproof, delivery, class, (*v*) rebuke, chide, preach, instruct, scold, **3**. lesson; *synonyms* (*n*) exercise, example, instruction, learning, message, moral, reading, study, task, warning, contraindication.
- лендлорд landlord; synonyms (n) host, proprietor, owner, slumlord, publican, army, freeholder, hotelier, hotelkeeper, saw, throng, vendor; antonyms (n) tenant, occupant.

- ленч lunch; *synonyms* (n) breakfast, luncheon, meal, tiffin, dejeuner, brunch, refection, banquet, bever, feast, mealtime, spread, (v) dine, eat, sup.
- летіти fly; synonyms (v) escape, dash, drive, flee, glide, elope, aviate, dart, flutter, hop, hover, (n) flap, (adj) break. flit. burst.
- леткий volatile; synonyms (adj) changeable, erratic, frivolous, unstable, mercurial, giddy, capricious, flighty, variable, inconstant, excitable, unsteady, airy, light, (v) fickle; antonym (adj) stable.
- лижа ski; synonym (n) skis.
- лико fibre; synonyms (n) fiber, character, case, eccentric, grapheme, lineament, part, persona, reference, role, shred, toughness, type.
- **лимон** lemon; *synonyms* (*n*) automobile, gamboge, auto, buff, bum, car, clunker, corn, criticism, crumb, disappointment, dud, etc, failure, (*adj*) cheap.
- **линяти** skin; *synonyms* (*n*) peel, hide, coating, fur, hull, rind, shell, crust, integument, pelt, (*v*) pare, bark, scrape, excoriate, flay.
- **липа** lime; *synonyms* (n) birdlime, basswood, calx, lemon, cement, linden, quicklime, (v) forelay, (adi) green.
- **ЛИПКИЙ** sticky; *synonyms* (*adj*) adhesive, awkward, clammy, muggy, embarrassing, glutinous, gummy, humid, difficult, slimy, gluey, gooey, hard, mucilaginous, pasty; *antonyms* (*adj*) dry, fresh, easy.
- липнути stick; *synonyms* (n) bar, club, (v) adhere, stab, attach, cling, fix, paste, staff, cohere, affix, bind, cleave, fasten, hold.
- лис fox (лисиця); *synonyms* (n) dodger, slyboots, (v) confound, confuse, fob, bewilder, fuddle, bedevil, befuddle, discombobulate.
- лисий bald; *synonyms* (*adj*) bare, hairless, simple, austere, meager, threadbare, raw, barefaced, dry, forthright, mere, naked, nude, plain, stark; *antonym* (*adj*) hairy.
- **ЛИСИЦЯ** fox (ЛИС); synonyms (n) dodger, slyboots, (v) confound, confuse, fob, bewilder, fuddle, bedevil, befuddle, discombobulate.
- **πисκ** polish; *synonyms* (n) finish, gloss, burnish, gentility, cultivation, elegance, refinement, shine, civilization, (ν) furbish, glaze, rub, civilize, clean, cultivate.
- **THCT 1.** leaf; *synonyms* (n) blade, page, foliage, folio, leafage, slip, (v) sheet, leave, flick, flip, **2.** letter; *synonyms* (n) epistle, mail, character, communication, dispatch, memorandum, message, note, type, inscription, learning, memo, missive, ticket, (v) print, **3.** writing; *synonyms* (n) script, composition, lettering, document, autograph, paper, authorship, book, record, journal, text, style, words, correspondence, penning, **4.** sheet; *synonyms* (n) board, layer, leaf, canvas, film, coat, coating, blanket, cover, coverlet, newspaper, piece, plane, sail, mainsheet.
- листівка 1. card; synonyms (n) bill, board, ticket, label, carte, menu, notice, placard, postal, scorecard, wit, (v) tease, 2. leaflet; synonyms (n) brochure, leaf, booklet, pamphlet, circular, folder, foliole, handout, newsletter, book, cusp, 3. postcard; synonyms (n) epistle, letter, mail
- **листок** leaf; *synonyms* (*n*) blade, page, foliage, folio, leafage, slip, (*v*) sheet, leave, flick, flip.

- **πисτοчοκ** leaflet; *synonyms* (*n*) brochure, leaf, booklet, pamphlet, circular, folder, foliole, handout, newsletter, book, cusp.
- листя foliage; synonyms (n) leafage, foliation, leaf, ramage, stem, tigella, flora, foliature, plants, shroud, undergrowth, vegetation, folio, frondescence, garment.
- лити 1. pour; synonyms (v) gush, shed, decant, flow, pelt, scatter, stream, discharge, emit, jet, run, spill, teem, (n) overflow, rain; antonym (v) drizzle, 2. cast; synonyms (v) hurl, throw, form, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, pitch, (n) appearance, casting, mold, 3. shed; synonyms (v) cast, discard, drop, moult, exuviate, molt, dismiss, disgorge, radiate, remove, (n) hut, shack, cabin, booth, hovel.
- **JUTHCS** pour; *synonyms* (*v*) gush, shed, decant, flow, pelt, scatter, stream, discharge, emit, jet, run, spill, teem, (*n*) overflow, rain; *antonym* (*v*) drizzle.
- **ЛИТКа** calf; *synonyms* (*n*) calfskin, sura, colt, foal, kitten, pup, shorthorn, kid, cow, doodle, dullard, foetus, loon, lout, lown.
- лихий wicked; *synonyms* (*adj*) atrocious, bad, evil, sinful, vicious, depraved, immoral, mischievous, unholy, vile, corrupt, criminal, diabolical, foul, hellish; *antonyms* (*adj*) good, innocent, kind, moral, pious, pure.
- лихо 1. disaster; synonyms (n) calamity, catastrophe, accident, adversity, blow, casualty, cataclysm, debacle, destruction, fiasco, misadventure, misfortune, affliction, curse, bane; antonyms (n) success, blessing, joy, 2. cancer; synonyms (n) canker, tumor, growth, blight, corruption, evil, disease, mormal, plague, poison, gangrene, hydra, (adj) leukemia, sting, thorn, 3. misery; synonyms (n) distress, agony, anguish, woe, hardship, ill, infelicity, poverty, suffering, depression, desolation, difficulty, gloom, melancholy, (adj) grief; antonyms (n) cheerfulness, ecstasy, happiness, fun, hopefulness.
- **ЛИХОМАНКА** fever; *synonyms* (n) delirium, feverishness, frenzy, heat, pyrexia, febricity, excitement, restlessness, craze, enthusiasm, pain, rage, disease, fury, lather.
- лицар knight; synonyms (n) cavalier, horseman, horse, chevalier, knighthood, adventurer, buck, cavalry, diacetylmorphine, heroin, junk, savior, lover, (v) dub, nickname
- лице face (обличчя); *synonyms* (n) look, aspect, countenance, expression, side, top, exterior, appearance, facade, surface, (v) confront, audacity, veneer, visage, (adj) front; *antonyms* (v) avoid, back.
- лицьовий facial; synonyms (adj) front, forward, surface, subcranial
- лише 1. only; synonyms (adv) alone, but, exclusively, just, merely, barely, entirely, simply, however, (adj) exclusive, individual, lone, one, sole, all, 2. barely; synonyms (adv) hardly, scarcely, narrowly, purely, scantily, scarce, slightly, solely, absolutely, (adj) only; antonym (adv) almost, 3. merely; synonym (adv) exactly.
- лишок surplus; synonyms (adj) extra, superfluous, odd, redundant, (n) excess, remainder, balance, overabundance, surfeit, glut, remnant, overflow, plethora, leftover, (adv) over; antonyms (n) necessary, lack, shortage, scarcity.

- ліберал liberal; *synonyms* (*adj*) generous, bountiful, free, handsome, abundant, benevolent, big, large, kind, ample, bounteous, broad, charitable, giving, tolerant; *antonyms* (*adj*) strict, oppressive, totalitarian, intolerant, (*n*) conservative.
- ліберальний liberal; synonyms (adj) generous, bountiful, free, handsome, abundant, benevolent, big, large, kind, ample, bounteous, broad, charitable, giving, tolerant; antonyms (adj) strict, oppressive, totalitarian, intolerant, (n) conservative.
- лівий left; synonyms (adj) gone, absent, odd, port, remaining, larboard, sinister, unexpended, abandoned, remainder, corrupt, deserted, disastrous, dishonest, evil; antonym (n) right.
- ліворуч left; synonyms (adj) gone, absent, odd, port, remaining, larboard, sinister, unexpended, abandoned, remainder, corrupt, deserted, disastrous, dishonest, evil; antonym (n) right.
- πira league; synonyms (n) alliance, association, coalition, confederacy, federation, class, combination, confederation, union, connection, society, fellowship, (ν) combine, confederate, band.
- JIIΓBO lie; synonyms (ν) consist, repose, falsify, belong, couch, (n) fabrication, falsehood, falsity, fib, fiction, rest, untruth, bluff, counterfeit, deceit; antonyms (ν) stand, (n) truth.
- лід ice; *synonyms* (n) frosting, glass, hoarfrost, icing, sparkler, frappe, rime, (v) frost, cool, refrigerate, fan.
- niaep 1. chief; synonyms (adj) head, principal, cardinal, capital, arch, central, essential, first, main, (n) administrator, boss, captain, executive, leader, paramount; antonyms (adj) minor, associate, secondary,
   leader; synonyms (n) chief, guide, director, chieftain, commander, conductor, lead, hero, superior, top, general, chairman, guru, elder, governor; antonyms (n) follower, straggler.
- ліжко bed; synonyms (n) couch, layer, base, basis, berth, bottom, flowerbed, foundation, crib, sack, rest, support, pallet, understructure, setting.
- лізти climb; synonyms (v) ascend, arise, clamber, escalate, increase, scale, scramble, (n) rise, mount, ascent, acclivity, advance, ascending, jump, ascension; antonyms (v) descend, drop.
- πiκap doctor; synonyms (n) physician, doc, medico, (v) cure, adulterate, attend, fix, heal, mend, remedy, repair, cook, debase, falsify, leech; antonym (v) break.
- лікарня 1. hospital; synonyms (n) infirmary, home, institution, sanitarium, sickroom, spital, inn, sickbay, (adj) hospitable, 2. clinic; synonyms (n) hospital, workshop, clinique, faculty, hospice, class, meeting, practicum, (v) clinical.
- ліквідація 1. abolition; synonyms (n) abolishment, annulment, destruction, ending, annihilation, cancellation, eradication, repeal; antonym (n) reinstatement, 2. elimination; synonyms (n) discharge, excretion, abolition, deletion, ejection, evacuation, exclusion, liquidation, omission, purge, riddance, segregation, separation, (v) removal; antonyms (n) addition, establishment.

- ліквідність liquidity; *synonyms* (*n*) fluidity, fluidness, liquid, liquidness, fluency, humidity, runniness.
- ліквідувати eliminate; *synonyms* (*v*) abolish, delete, rid, annihilate, cancel, dispel, eradicate, extinguish, obliterate, take, clear, destroy, discard, dismiss, erase.
- ліки 1. remedy; synonyms (n) cure, redress, medicine, drug, relief, antidote, curative, (v) heal, help, amend, rectify, correct, relieve, aid, doctor, 2. medicine; synonyms (n) medicament, medication, physic, remedy, therapy, treatment, cathartic, potion, preparation, (v) medicate, 3. cure; synonyms (n) salve, curing, healing, restorative, solution, vulcanization, abbe, advowson, (v) treat, pickle, preserve, restore, keep, mend, recover, 4. drug; synonyms (n) anesthetic, prescription, sedative, stimulant, (v) dose, (adj) chaff, 5. preparation; synonyms (n) arrangement, concoction, provision, readiness, training, practice, formulation, homework, planning, prep, discipline, drill, instruction, background, prelude
- **лікоть** elbow; *synonyms* (*n*) bend, cubitus, angle, joint, (*v*) poke, jostle, nudge, push, shove, jolt, crowd, hustle.
- лікування 1. cure; synonyms (n) remedy, antidote, medicine, salve, curative, curing, healing, therapy, (v) correct, help, treat, heal, pickle, preserve, restore, 2. treatment; synonyms (n) cure, conduct, handling, management, manipulation, medication, reception, attention, method, usage, use, discourse, discussion, execution, (v) behavior.
- nikybath 1. treat; *synonyms* (v) handle, deal, manage, process, heal, nurse, regale, operate, doctor, (n) feast, administer, delicacy, luxury, tidbit, banquet, 2. cure; *synonyms* (n) remedy, antidote, medicine, salve, curative, curing, healing, therapy, treatment, (v) correct, help, treat, pickle, preserve, restore.
- **лікуватися** nurse; *synonyms* (n) nurture, doctor, amah, (v) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- лілія lily; synonyms (adj) chalk, effeminate, milk, paper, rose, snow, anemone, asphodel, begonia, buttercup, geranium, marigold, ranunculus, rhododendron, tulip.
- лімб radius (радіус); *synonyms* (n) length, semidiameter, spoke, range, compass, scope, bar, bore, caliber, diameter, line.
- nimit limit; synonyms (n) bound, boundary, edge, (v) border, restrict, circumscribe, confine, curb, restrain, abridge, check, close, constrain, curtail, (prep) extent; antonyms (n) center, extension, minimum, (v) broaden, extend.
- **лінгвістика** linguistics; *synonyms* (n) glossology, philology, glossary, glottology.
- лінгвістичний linguistic; synonym (adj) lingual.
- лінза 1. lens; *synonyms* (n) meniscus, sunglass, (v) glass, barometer, especially, glaze, goblet, hourglass, photograph, spyglass, tumbler, weatherglass, 2. glass (СКЛО); *synonyms* (n) pane, bottle, drink, bowl, cup, chalice, glassful, telescope, window, (adj) ice.
- лінивий 1. lazy; synonyms (adj) indolent, idle, inert, drowsy, inactive, shiftless, dull, faineant, remiss, slothful, slow, sluggish, leisurely, sluggard, tardy; antonyms (adj) energetic, diligent, active, 2. idle;

- synonyms (adj) lazy, free, baseless, frivolous, fruitless, groundless, unfounded, empty, disengaged, flimsy, barren, dead, futile, jobless, light; antonyms (adj) busy, employed, (v) change, 3. floppy; synonyms (adj) flabby, flaccid, drooping, loose, slack, soft, baggy, droopy, (n) limp, diskette; antonyms (adj) stiff, taut.
- лінійка 1. rule; synonyms (n) govern, order, decree, dominion, law, ordinance, principle, regulate, reign, authority, dictate, (v) command, control, influence, direct, 2. ruler; synonyms (n) master, governor, monarch, leader, dynast, prince, chief, head, director, controller, sheik, sovereign, government, (adj) rule, regent.
- лінійний linear; synonyms (adj) lineal, rectilinear, running, additive, analog, analogue, ancestral, elongate, family, patriarchal, direct, straight, delineated, elongated, functional.
- лінія line; synonyms (n) cord, file, house, breed, course, family, lineage, field, ancestry, border, boundary, cable, crease, row, (v) order.
- ліпний plastic; synonyms (adj) flexible, ductile, elastic, malleable, pliant, lithe, fictile, pliable, soft, supple, impressionable, artificial, lissom, tractable, (v) limber.
- ліпший better; synonyms (adj) superior, (n) bettor, (v) amend, improve, best, mend, recover, advance, ameliorate, emend, reform, enhance, exceed, excel, refine; antonyms (adj) lesser, (adv) worse, (n) inferior, (v) worsen
- ліс 1. wood; *synonyms* (n) forest, timber, woods, tree, lumber, coppice, jungle, 2. forest; *synonyms* (n) woodland, timberland, wood, (v) afforest.
- лісівництво forestry; *synonyms* (n) sylviculture, arboriculture.
- πicoBo3 drug; synonyms (n) cure, medicine, anesthetic, medication, prescription, remedy, sedative, stimulant, (ν) dose, medicate, potion, (adi) chaff.
- лісоматеріал 1. timber; synonyms (n) wood, forest, lumber, beam, plank, girder, rafter, tree, timberland, woodland, board, joist, ore, quality, support, 2. wood; synonyms (n) timber, woods, coppice, jungle.
- **ЛІТАК 1.** aircraft; synonyms (n) airplane, airliner, craft, plane, vessel, airship, blimp, boat, dirigible, hydroplane, jumbo, vehicle, zeppelin, jet, seaplane, **2.** craft; synonyms (n) ability, art, cunning, trade, artfulness, guile, fraud, shift, artifice, business, deceit, job, occupation, profession, skill, **3.** aeroplane; synonym (n) sheet, **4.** plane; synonyms (n) face, aeroplane, aircraft, degree, stage, surface, facet, (v) flatten, shave, (adi) level, even, flat, horizontal, smooth, flush.
- **літання** flying; *synonyms* (*adj*) fast, fluttering, quick, rapid, swift, aflare, flaring, moving, (*n*) fly, flight.
- літати fly; *synonyms* (*v*) escape, dash, drive, flee, glide, elope, aviate, dart, flutter, hop, hover, (*n*) flap, (*adj*) break, flit, burst.
- nirepa letter; synonyms (n) epistle, mail, character, communication, dispatch, memorandum, message, note, type, inscription, learning, memo, missive, ticket, (v) print.
- література literature; *synonyms* (n) learning, letters, science, writing, novel, writings, knowledge,

- advertisement, art, circular, erudition, fiction, letterure, pamphlet, text.
- літературний literary; synonyms (adj) learned, bookish, cultured, educated, erudite, artistic, blue, civilizing, classical, edifying, educational, enlightening, enriching, gloom, intellectual.
- літній elderly; synonyms (adj) aged, old, elder, older, senior, antiquated, geriatric, ripened, antique, ancient, cured, matronly, declining, grave, mature; antonym (adj) young.
- **лito** summer; synonyms (n) summertime, beam, joist, lintel, rafter, scaffold, season, skeleton, transom, girder, harvest, trave, summertide, vacation.
- літр litre; synonyms (n) liter, l, fifty, lambert.
- ліф Waist; *synonyms* (n) waistline, shank, middle, belly, blouse, cannon, stem, arch, (*adj*) neck, stricture, wasp.
- πiφτ lift; synonyms (n) elevator, boost, heave, (v) hoist, raise, rise, elevate, erect, filch, hike, advance, airlift, pilfer, pinch, rear.
- ліхтар lamp (лампа); *synonyms* (n) light, look, beacon, view, glance, alfalfa, glimpse, lucern, (v) behold, regard, perceive, gape, gaze, inspect, observe.
- ліцензія 1. licence; synonyms (v) license, certify, endorse, evidence, attest, demonstrate, indorse, manifest, 2. permit; synonyms (v) allow, give, admit, leave, let, bear, endure, have, agree, assent, (n) consent, licence, pass, permission, (adj) grant; antonyms (v) forbid, ban, prevent, prohibit, stop.
- лічильник 1. indicator; synonyms (n) gauge, index, indication, arrow, indicant, pointer, signpost, sign, signal, symbol, 2. counter; synonyms (n) buffet, bench, reverse, (v) reply, contradict, resist, answer, react, respond, retort, thwart, (adj) converse, antagonistic, contrary, opposite, 3. computer; synonyms (n) calculator, mainframe, machine, reckoner, laptop, computist, estimator, figurer, workstation, analog, brain, clone, compatible, (v) number, program.
- лічити count (рахувати); synonyms (n) number, calculation, computation, total, (v) calculate, compute, tally, account, cipher, consider, estimate, matter, reckon, weigh, add.
- ліщина hazel; *synonyms* (n) filbert, cobnut, hazelnut, brown, auburn, cob.
- **лоб** forehead; *synonyms* (*n*) brow, front, foreland, mut, phiz, physiognomy, visage, eyebrow, assurance, hilltop, supercilium, (*adv*) foremost.
- лоббі lobby; *synonyms* (n) hall, foyer, anteroom, hallway, lounge, vestibule, aisle, antechamber, corridor, entry, lane, passage, alley, artery, (v) buttonhole.
- лобі lobby; *synonyms* (*n*) hall, foyer, anteroom, hallway, lounge, vestibule, aisle, antechamber, corridor, entry, lane, passage, alley, artery, (*v*) buttonhole.
- ловити 1. catch; *synonyms* (*v*) arrest, capture, hook, apprehend, get, acquire, ensnare, intercept, (*n*) haul, hitch, trick, bolt, clasp, grab, pawl; *antonym* (*v*) release, 2. take; *synonyms* (*v*) admit, hold, adopt, bear, carry, catch, clutch, obtain, return, borrow, pick, appropriate, (*n*) seize, (*phr*) accept, receive; *antonyms* (*v*) give, refuse, abstain, add. lose.

- JOFIKA logic; synonyms (n) argument, reason, reasoning, sense, order, logics, coherence, rationality, analysis, assumption, basis, brains, clarity, conclusion, consistency; antonym (n) stupidity.
- логічний logical; synonyms (adj) coherent, consistent, legitimate, rational, reasonable, sensible, justifiable, valid, arranged, lucid, methodical, orderly, systematic; antonyms (adj) illogical, confused, imaginative, irrational, unintelligible.
- **JOPIUHICTS** consistency; *synonyms* (n) consistence, agreement, body, coherence, consonance, conformity, congruence, congruity, density, uniformity, accordance, concord, compatibility, consentaneousness, accord; *antonyms* (n) inconsistency, discrepancy.
- **ЛОЖКА** spoon; *synonyms* (*n*) ladle, spoonful, shovel, trowel, (*v*) scoop, smooch, dip, snog.
- **ЛОЗИНА 1**. spray; *synonyms* (*n*) jet, mist, froth, aerosol, atomizer, foam, branch, (*v*) shower, splash, spout, spurt, dust, gush, scatter, patter, **2**. rod; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, baton, perch, shaft, whip, arm, cane, gat, staff, wand, truncheon, club, cudgel, (*v*) stick, line.
- **локалізація** allocation; *synonyms* (*n*) allotment, portion, allowance, quota, share, grant, apportioning, apportionment, appropriation, assignment, distribution, measure, part, proportion, ration.
- **ЛОКАЛЬНИЙ** local; *synonyms* (*adj*) native, sectional, topical, home, indigenous, municipal, nearby, civic, limited, internal, national, parochial, provincial, restricted, (*n*) resident; *antonyms* (*adj*) foreign, universal, worldwide.
- **ЛОКОМОТИВ** locomotive; *synonyms* (n) engine, conductor, (adj) locomotor, mobile, (v) train, airplane, autobus, automobile, bus, minivan, motorbike, omnibus, plane, subway, trolley.
- **JOMKA** demolition; *synonyms* (n) annihilation, demolishment, destruction, devastation, obliteration, ruin, razing, sabotage, death, disposal, bulldozing, destroyer, downfall, end, explosion; *antonym* (n) construction.
- JIOPД lord; *synonyms* (n) chief, master, noble, sir, seignior, almighty, creator, gentleman, maker, mistress, nobleman, overlord, ruler, captain, impropriator.
- лосось salmon; synonyms (n) orange, red.
- **JOTOK** tray; *synonyms* (n) plate, dish, basket, bassinet, case, corbeille, cradle, crate, creel, dorser, dosser, hamper, hopper, jardiniere, lapboard.
- **ЛОЯЛЬНИЙ** loyal; *synonyms* (*adj*) unwavering, fast, constant, devoted, reliable, steady, true, dependable, obedient, dedicated, liege, observant, (*n*) faithful, accurate, (*v*) firm; *antonyms* (*adj*) disloyal, unfaithful, unreliable.
- **ЛОЯЛЬНІСТЬ** 1. loyalty; *synonyms* (n) allegiance, faith, devotion, honesty, dedication, faithfulness, fealty, fidelity, commitment, integrity, attachment, constancy, homage, belief, reality; *antonym* (n) disloyalty, 2. allegiance; *synonyms* (n) loyalty, duty; *antonym* (n) sedition.
- лояльно truly; synonyms (adv) actually, really, sincerely, exactly, genuinely, indeed, right, certainly, honestly, precisely, very, legitimately, correctly, loyally, absolutely; antonym (adv) falsely.

- луза 1. pocket; *synonyms* (n) cavity, pouch, hole, hollow, (v) bag, take, appropriate, sack, steal, lift, catch, embezzle, misappropriate, pilfer, (adj) digest, 2. pot; *synonyms* (n) caldron, boiler, can, bucket, belly, cannabis, commode, container, flowerpot, grass, heap, jug, (v) bottle, (adj) deal, marijuana.
- πyκ bow; synonyms (n) arc, curve, obeisance, turn, curvature, (v) bend, arch, stoop, duck, buckle, crouch, incline, kowtow, crook, defer.
- лукавий arch; synonyms (n) arc, acute, bend, curvature, dome, archway, (v) curve, bow, vault, (adj) shrewd, sly, wily, round, crafty, consummate; antonym (v) straightness.
- луна echo; synonyms (n) answer, repercussion, reaction, reflection, replication, (v) repeat, reproduce, resound, reverberate, rebound, ape, copy, imitate, reflect, reiterate.
- **лушпина** hull; *synonyms* (*n*) crust, shell, hulk, husk, structure, body, glume, (*v*) skin, (*adj*) torso, trunk, bole.
- лущити scale; synonyms (n) flake, gamut, degree, graduation, measure, yardstick, rate, chip, (v) ascend, climb, gauge, mount, weigh, rise, (adj) balance; antonym (v) descend.
- льодовий icy; synonyms (adj) frozen, cold, freezing, frigid, frosty, glacial, arctic, chill, chilly, wintry, aloof, distant, gelid, standoffish, hostile; antonyms (adj) warm, hot.
- **льодовиковий** icy; *synonyms* (*adj*) frozen, cold, freezing, frigid, frosty, glacial, arctic, chill, chilly, wintry, aloof, distant, gelid, standoffish, hostile; *antonyms* (*adj*) warm, hot.
- **льодяний** icy; *synonyms* (*adj*) frozen, cold, freezing, frigid, frosty, glacial, arctic, chill, chilly, wintry, aloof, distant, gelid, standoffish, hostile; *antonyms* (*adj*) warm, hot.
- льотчик pilot; synonyms (n) guide, leader, aviator, captain, airman, (v) manage, lead, conduct, direct, director, fly, navigate, show, escort, (adj) experimental.
- льох cellar; synonyms (n) vault, basement, cellarage, winery, cockpit, hold, bound, catacomb, cell, floor, sepulcher, tomb, vineyard, chateau, curvet.
- любий 1. dear; synonyms (adj) beloved, close, costly, expensive, lovely, precious, near, adorable, affectionate, cherished, familiar, high, (n) darling, love, honey; antonyms (adj) cheap, worthless, 2. darling; synonyms (adj) pet, sweet, pretty, idol, (n) dear, favorite, deary, angel, treasure, duck, ducky, favourite, flame, lover, sweetheart, 3. honey (мед); synonyms (n) dearest, baby, molasses, sugar, (v) sweeten, 4. beloved; synonyms (adj) loved, valued, (n) agreeable.
- любитель 1. lover; synonyms (n) dear, darling, beau, devotee, fan, admirer, buff, love, beloved, amorist, man, pet, sweetheart, gallant, boyfriend, 2. amateur; synonyms (adj) amateurish, inexpert, unskilled, inexperienced, untrained, unqualified, (n) novice, beginner, apprentice, aspirant, lover, greenhorn; antonyms (adj) practiced, (n) professional, expert.
- **любити** 1. love (кохання, кохати, любов); synonyms (n) desire, affection, dear, fondness, liking, benevolence, charity, attachment, beloved, darling,

- devotion, honey, (v) cherish, enjoy, like; *antonyms* (n) abhorrence, hatred, aversion, (v) hate, dislike, abhor, **2**. like; *synonyms* (v) corresponding, identical, care, fancy, (adj) equal, equivalent, alike, analogous, comparable, same, parallel, similar, such, (n) love, relish; *antonyms* (prep) unlike, (adj) different.
- люблячий 1. fond; synonyms (adj) affectionate, amorous, caring, devoted, loving, tender, adoring, ardent, doting, attached, indulgent, kind, enamored; antonym (adj) uncaring, 2. loving; synonyms (adj) fond, friendly, admiring, compassionate, fatherly, gentle, intimate, motherly, passionate, warm, (v) sympathetic; antonym (adj) cold.
- любов 1. love (кохання, кохати); synonyms (n) desire, affection, dear, fondness, liking, benevolence, charity, attachment, beloved, darling, devotion, honey, (v) cherish, enjoy, like; antonyms (n) abhorrence, hatred, aversion, (v) hate, dislike, abhor, 2. affection; synonyms (n) affect, affectionateness, disease, feeling, heart, kindness, love, tenderness, admiration, care, complaint, condition, emotion, esteem, (v) regard.
- люб'язний 1. kind; synonyms (n) form, helpful, sort, benign, brand, breed, class, gentle, type, variety, (adj) friendly, generous, good, humane, affectionate; antonyms (adj) unkind, callous, cruel, hardhearted, mean, merciless, nasty, spiteful, uncaring, upsetting, disagreeable, unfeeling, 2. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, correct, decent, delicate, difficult, enjoyable; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible, 3. polite; synonyms (adj) courteous, cultured, civil, courtly, genteel, proper, refined, attentive, chivalrous, civilized, complaisant, considerate, cultivated, gracious, polished; antonyms (adj) impolite, rude, bad-mannered, discourteous, boorish.
- люди 1. people; *synonyms* (*n*) nation, community, family, folk, multitude, populace, clan, mob, flock, citizenry, crowd, (*v*) inhabit, occupy, reside, dwell, 2. men; *synonyms* (*n*) hands, manpower, army, custody, public, sex, troop, workforce, world.
- людина 1. human (людський); synonyms (adj) humane, corporeal, earthly, worldly, (n) mortal, man, person, homo, gay, party, body, life, being, individual, (adv) fleshly, 2. man (чоловік); synonyms (n) fellow, gentleman, guy, husband, human, humanity, humankind, humans, mankind, world, hand, servant, (v) equip, (obj) he, male; antonym (n) woman, 3. person; synonyms (n) character, creature, soul, form, organism, personality, somebody, someone, substance, thing, partner; antonym (n) automaton, 4. soul (душа); synonyms (n) ghost, heart, mind, personification, essence, psyche, self, marrow, bosom, breast, embodiment, spirit, (adj) core, quintessence, gist.
- **людинолюбство** humanity; *synonyms* (*n*) benevolence, compassion, flesh, kindness, mankind, human, gentleness, humankind, man, mercy, mortality, sympathy, (*adj*) clemency, charity, benignity; *antonym* (*n*) cruelty.
- людство 1. humanity; *synonyms* (*n*) benevolence, compassion, flesh, kindness, mankind, human, gentleness, humankind, man, mercy, mortality,

- sympathy, (*adj*) clemency, charity, benignity; *antonym* (*n*) cruelty, **2**. mankind; *synonyms* (*n*) humanity, world, humans, people.
- людський human (людина); synonyms (adj) humane, corporeal, earthly, worldly, (n) mortal, man, person, homo, gay, party, body, life, being, individual, (adv) fleshly.
- **ЛЮЛЬКа** pipe; *synonyms* (*n*) tube, conduit, channel, duct, flue, hose, passage, pipage, (*v*) cry, peep, screech, shriek, sing, squeak, creak.
- лютий 1. fierce; synonyms (adj) bitter, violent, acute, cruel, ferocious, brutal, furious, grim, savage, nasty, angry, ardent, atrocious, barbarous, boisterous; antonyms (adj) gentle, mild, 2. wicked; synonyms (adj) bad, evil, sinful, vicious, depraved, immoral, mischievous, unholy, vile, corrupt, criminal, diabolical, foul, hellish, iniquitous; antonyms (adj) good, innocent, kind, moral, pious, pure, 3. fell; synonyms (v) chop, cut, drop, floor, ax, level, down, demolish, destroy, fall, (adj) prostrate, fierce, murderous, (n) skin, coat.
- лютувати rage; synonyms (n) fury, wrath, anger, passion, frenzy, craze, exasperation, fad, fashion, (v) fume, bluster, storm, (adj) indignation, flame, ire.
- **JHOTL** rage; *synonyms* (n) fury, wrath, anger, passion, frenzy, craze, exasperation, fad, fashion, (v) fume, bluster, storm, (adj) indignation, flame, ire.
- лякати panic; *synonyms* (n) alarm, dismay, horror, scare, dread, fright, anxiety, fear, flap, hysteria, funk, (v) shock, (*adj*) consternation, terror, awe; *antonym* (n) composure.
- лякаючий deterrent; synonyms (n) check, hindrance, impediment, bar, difficulty, curb, handicap, restraint, constraint, discouragement, (adj) preventive; antonym (n) incentive
- лякливий wild; synonyms (adj) desert, waste, fierce, boisterous, violent, reckless, desolate, ferocious, furious, raging, rude, stormy, untamed, giddy, barbarous; antonyms (adj) calm, orderly, domestic, manageable, sane, cultivated, restrained, tame.
- лялечка dolly; *synonyms* (n) doll, bird, bob, bobbin, cart, chick, dame, die, punch, jeep, skirt, stirrer, wench.
- лялька doll; *synonyms* (n) puppet, baby, chick, figurine, dummy, girl, marionette, toy, bird, dame.
- ляпас buffet; *synonyms* (n) blow, canteen, restaurant, impact, (v) beat, batter, cuff, buff, hit, knock, punch, smack, belabor, strike, thump.

## M

мабуть 1. maybe; synonyms (adv) perhaps, possibly, peradventure, perchance, probably, debatably, questionably, conceivable, credible, feasible, imaginably, obtainable, potentially, (n) uncertainty; antonym (adv) definitely, 2. apparently; synonyms (adv) seemingly, clearly, evidently, manifestly, obviously, ostensibly, patently, allegedly, noticeably, plain, plainly, presumably, supposedly, visibly, 3. presumably; synonyms (adv) likely, presumptively,

- apparently, superficially, doubtlessly, hypothetically, indubitably, reasonably, surely, theoretically, unquestionably, (adi) doubtless, **4**. probably; synonyms (adv) maybe, belike, believably, credibly, plausibly, (adj) like
- мавпа monkey; synonyms (n) ape, imp, primate, rascal, scamp, (v) tinker, meddle, tamper, trifle, cuckoo, echo, imitator
- магазин 1. shop; synonyms (n) business, store, factory, plant, emporium, market, workshop, house, outlet, workplace, (v) betray, purchase, grass, browse, denounce, 2. store; synonyms (n) hoard, shop, heap, reserve, supply, accumulation, (v) stock, accumulate, garner, amass, bank, cache, keep, preserve, collect.
- **Marictp** master; *synonyms* (*n*) captain, instructor, head, boss, leader, gentleman, (*v*) conquer, control, command, defeat, dominate, (*adj*) chief, original, ace, expert.
- MAΓICTPAJIb 1. header; *synonyms* (*n*) caption, heading, lintel, title, head, plunge, brick, cope, coping, dip, (*v*) dive, **2**. trunk; *synonyms* (*n*) stem, boot, torso, body, bole, proboscis, snout, stalk, box, stock, case, house, luggage, nose, stirps.
- **MAΓICTPAT** magistrate; *synonyms* (n) judge, justice, jurist, official, provost, archon, chancellor, officer, assignee, court, ephor, evaluator, judicature, justness, prefect.
- магічний 1. magic; *synonyms* (*adj*) magical, charming, supernatural, (*n*) conjuration, incantation, charm, enchantment, legerdemain, sorcery, glamour, fascination, illusion, theurgy, trick, deception, 2. magical; *synonyms* (*adj*) magic, mystic, miraculous, mysterious, occult, sorcerous, witching, wizard, wizardly.
- MAΓIЯ magic; *synonyms* (*adj*) magical, charming, supernatural, (*n*) conjuration, incantation, charm, enchantment, legerdemain, sorcery, glamour, fascination, illusion, theurgy, trick, deception.
- **МАГНАТ** king (король); *synonyms* (*n*) emperor, mogul, sovereign, chief, baron, crown, magnate, ruler, tycoon, majesty, rex, monarch, power, ace.
- **МАГНЕТИЧНИЙ** magnetic; *synonyms* (*adj*) attractive, charismatic, fascinating, inviting, magnetized, tempting, captivating, enchanting, glamorous, prepossessing, entrancing, engaging, seductive, hypnotic, dynamic.
- магнітний magnetic; synonyms (adj) attractive, charismatic, fascinating, inviting, magnetized, tempting, captivating, enchanting, glamorous, prepossessing, entrancing, engaging, seductive, hypnotic, dynamic.
- мадам madam; *synonyms* (n) dame, lady, ma'am, wife, gentlewoman, signora, female, bird, chick, doll, noblewoman, peeress, skirt, wench.
- Macτoκ 1. estate; synonyms (n) condition, land, demesne, order, rank, domain, acres, property, state, substance, category, class, fortune, ground, heritage, 2. manor; synonyms (n) mansion, castle, residence, seigniory, 3. domain; synonyms (n) country, department, realm, area, kingdom, arena, field, province, ambit, empire, region, sphere, compass, county, discipline; antonym (n) range, 4. property; synonyms (n) characteristic, capital, peculiarity, feature, belongings, character, asset, estate,

- goods, nature, place, wealth, (adj) attribute, quality, (v) possession.
- **MAÏC** corn; *synonyms* (*n*) maize, clavus, cereals, callus, wheat, grain, commonplace, (*v*) feed, keep.
- майбутнє future; synonyms (adj) unborn, coming, prospective, intended, potential, approaching, forthcoming, imminent, impending, later, (n) prospect, hereafter, fate, futurity, (v) horizon; antonym (n) past.
- майбутній 1. future (майбутнє); synonyms (adj) unborn, coming, prospective, intended, potential, approaching, forthcoming, imminent, impending, later, (n) prospect, hereafter, fate, futurity, (v) horizon; antonym (n) past, 2. coming; synonyms (v) instant, (adj) future, following, near, next, upcoming, (n) access, advent, approach, appearance, arrival, return, arrive, come, climax; antonym (n) departure, 3. next; svnonvms (adi) nearest, adjacent, contiguous. subsequent, ensuing, after, close, adjoining, posterior, closest, neighboring, proximate, (adv) afterward, then, subsequently; antonyms (adj) distant, outgoing, (adv) previous, preceding, previously, 4. prospective; synonyms (adj) eventual, likely, possible, probable, latent, budding, imaginable, immediate, awaited, considered, looked-for, planned, promised, proposed, soon-to-be
- MAЙБУТНІСТЬ future (майбутнє); synonyms (adj) unborn, coming, prospective, intended, potential, approaching, forthcoming, imminent, impending, later, (n) prospect, hereafter, fate, futurity, (ν) horizon; antonym (n) past.
- майдан area (площа); synonyms (n) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood, section, sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land.
- майже 1. almost; synonyms (adv) nearly, approximately, just, around, most, practically, roughly, virtually, some, (prep) about, (adj) near, nigh, approaching, approximate, barely, 2. nearly; synonyms (adv) almost, close, closely, intimately, much, dear, halfway, (adj) thereabouts, 3. about; synonyms (prep) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, of, regarding, respecting, round, throughout, towards, (adv) in, nearby; antonyms (prep) exactly, precisely, 4. practically; synonyms (adv) hardly, usefully, conveniently; antonyms (adv) theoretically, unrealistically.
- майно 1. property; synonyms (n) characteristic, capital, peculiarity, feature, belongings, character, asset, estate, goods, nature, place, wealth, (adj) attribute, quality, (v) possession, 2. goods; synonyms (n) cargo, freight, commodity, merchandise, product, chattels, commodities, effects, produce, property, stuff, load, consignment, gear, (v) furniture, 3. asset; synonyms (n) advantage, strength, benefit, forte, purchase, good, plus, virtue, investment; antonyms (n) liability, vice, 4. estate; synonyms (n) condition, land, demesne, order, rank, domain, acres, state, substance, category, class, fortune, ground, heritage, 5. stuff; synonyms (n) material, cloth, force, matter, stock, (v) cram, fill, jam, pack, pad, ram, squeeze, glut, gorge, shove; antonym (v) unstuff.
- **maŭop** major; *synonyms* (*adj*) chief, key, large, main, superior, considerable, master, grave, fundamental,

- great, higher, important, leading, overriding, principal; *antonyms* (*adj*) minor, unimportant, lesser, petty, slight.
- майоріти wave; *synonyms* (n) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (v) brandish, flap, flutter, curl, flourish, swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon.
- **майстер** master; *synonyms* (*n*) captain, instructor, head, boss, leader, gentleman, (*v*) conquer, control, command, defeat, dominate, (*adj*) chief, original, ace, expert.
- майстерність 1. art (мистецтво); synonyms (n) knowhow, skill, talent, trick, artistry, craft, dexterity, science, accomplishment, aptitude, artfulness, trade, work, address, adroitness, 2. skill; synonyms (n) artifice, ability, capability, capacity, knack, faculty, finesse, cleverness, competence, cunning, expertise, facility, handicraft, proficiency, (adj) art; antonyms (n) clumsiness, inability, incompetence.
- майстерня 1. shop (магазин); synonyms (n) business, store, factory, plant, emporium, market, workshop, house, outlet, workplace, (v) betray, purchase, grass, browse, denounce, 2. workshop; synonyms (n) shop, studio, workhouse, atelier, works, poorhouse, training, committee, induction, meeting, practicum.
- MAKET model; synonyms (n) form, fashion, example, image, dummy, figure, prototype, frame, lesson, archetype, design, (v) copy, pattern, imitate, shape; antonym (adj) atypical.
- MAKJIEP broker; *synonyms* (n) mediator, agent, gobetween, factor, middleman, dealer, attorney, intermediary, bailiff, merchant.
- максимальний maximum; *synonyms* (*adj*) extreme, maximal, top, greatest, highest, supreme, ultimate, (*n*) limit, utmost, height, most, culmination, record, climax, peak; *antonyms* (*adj*) least, (*n*) minimum.
- **MAKCHMYM** maximum; *synonyms* (*adj*) extreme, maximal, top, greatest, highest, supreme, ultimate, (*n*) limit, utmost, height, most, culmination, record, climax, peak; *antonyms* (*adj*) least, (*n*) minimum.
- MAJIEНЬКИЙ 1. small; synonyms (adj) little, minute, narrow, fine, inadequate, insignificant, low, minor, petty, slight, light, remote, cramped, young, limited; antonyms (adj) bulky, colossal, considerable, enormous, extralarge, great, huge, sizeable, giant, major, (syn) big, large, 2. little; synonyms (adj) small, diminutive, brief, short, some, tiny, exiguous, baby, bantam, contemptible, fiddling, humble, inconsiderable, (v) dash, bit; antonym (adi) important.
- малечий baby; synonyms (n) babe, child, darling, young, (v) coddle, indulge, pamper, cosset, mollycoddle, spoil, (adj) infant, miniature, small, babyish, dear; antonym (adj) giant.
- малий 1. small; synonyms (adj) little, minute, narrow, fine, inadequate, insignificant, low, minor, petty, slight, light, remote, cramped, young, limited; antonyms (adj) bulky, colossal, considerable, enormous, extra-large, great, huge, sizeable, giant, major, (syn) big, large, 2. little; synonyms (adj) small, diminutive, brief, short, some, tiny, exiguous, baby, bantam, contemptible, fiddling, humble, inconsiderable, (v) dash, bit; antonym (adj) important.
- **мало 1.** few; *synonyms* (*adj*) infrequent, rare, scarce, occasional, sporadic, uncommon, erratic, imperceptible,

- inconsequential, intermittent, middling, negligible, paltry, piddling, scattered; *antonyms* (n) plenty, (adj) many, countless, innumerable, various, **2**. little; *synonyms* (adj) small, diminutive, insignificant, brief, minute, petty, short, some, tiny, exiguous, light, baby, bantam, (v) dash, bit; *antonyms* (adj) big, enormous, large, important.
- **МАЛОВАЖНИЙ** indifferent; *synonyms* (*adj*) apathetic, callous, cold, cool, fair, impassive, insensible, unconcerned, careless, dull, average, aloof, casual, detached, disinterested; *antonyms* (*adj*) caring, enthusiastic, fervent, keen, obsessive, eager, energetic, involved, surprised.
- **МАЛЬОВНИЧИЙ 1.** graphic; *synonyms* (*adj*) vivid, descriptive, clear, picturesque, realistic, expressive, graphical, lifelike, detailed, (*n*) picture, diagram, image, schematic, (*v*) pictorial, **2.** picturesque; *synonyms* (*adj*) graphic, striking, colorful, idyllic, lovely, quaint, scenic, romantic
- **малювати 1.** draw; *synonyms* (*v*) attract, drag, delineate, pull, depict, derive, describe, design, tie, bring, charm, haul, (*n*) allure, attraction, draft; *antonyms* (*v*) push, repel, **2.** picture (картина); *synonyms* (*n*) photograph, effigy, paint, drawing, likeness, depiction, description, film, (*v*) image, draw, fancy, imagine, copy, envision, figure.
- малюк baby; synonyms (n) babe, child, darling, young, (v) coddle, indulge, pamper, cosset, mollycoddle, spoil, (adj) infant, miniature, small, babyish, dear; antonym (adj) giant.
- малюнок 1. drawing; *synonyms* (*n*) draft, drafting, delineation, picture, plan, cartoon, depiction, draftsmanship, draught, draw, painting, chart, design, figure, illustration, 2. picture (картина); *synonyms* (*n*) photograph, effigy, paint, drawing, likeness, description, film, icon, (*v*) image, describe, depict, fancy, imagine, copy, envision.
- маля baby; synonyms (n) babe, child, darling, young, (v) coddle, indulge, pamper, cosset, mollycoddle, spoil, (adj) infant, miniature, small, babyish, dear; antonym (adj) giant.
- **маляр** painter; *synonyms* (*n*) artist, limner, cable, catamount, cougar, guy, halser, hawser, line.
- **Mama 1**. mother; *synonyms* (n) mamma, parent, (v) father, beget, engender, generate, care, sire, fuss, get, **2**. mum; *synonyms* (n) mama, mammy, mater, mom, momma, mommy, mother, secrecy, mummy, (*adj*) silent, dumb, mute, quiet, taciturn.
- **MAMKA** nurse; *synonyms* (n) nurture, doctor, amah, (v) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- **мандат** mandate; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, injunction, authority, behest, command, bidding, instruction, authorization, commandment, commission, decree, dictate, order, edict, claim.
- мандрівка 1. journey (подорож); *synonyms* (*n*) jaunt, excursion, expedition, passage, trip, way, course, flight, outing, pilgrimage, (*v*) go, travel, cruise, fare, navigate, 2. trip (подорож); *synonyms* (*n*) tour, lapse, run, drive, misstep, ride, voyage, (*v*) journey, slip, stumble, fall, skip, tumble, err, (*adj*) blunder; *antonym* (*v*) fix, 3.

- travel; *synonyms* (n) pass, stroke, locomotion, traffic, (v) proceed, move, roam, ramble, sail, range, track, advance, progress, walk, wander, 4. tour; *synonyms* (n) circuit, round, tramp, turn, spell, circle, hike, bout, perambulation, enlistment, hitch, shift, (v) visit, explore, trek, 5. Voyage; *synonym* (n) quest.
- мандрівник traveller; synonym (n) traveler.
- **мандрувати** travel; *synonyms* (*n*) journey, pass, stroke, passage, tour, (*v*) go, run, proceed, move, roam, ride, cruise, ramble, sail. (*adi*) course.
- MAHEЖ stable; synonyms (adj) firm, permanent, reliable, constant, durable, fast, fixed, lasting, secure, stationary, enduring, hard, persistent, solid, sound; antonyms (adj) unstable, shaky, wobbly, dangerous, precarious, rickety, volatile.
- манера 1. manner; *synonyms* (n) bearing, appearance, demeanor, form, method, air, carriage, custom, look, style, way, course, (v) fashion, habit, (adj) kind, 2. genre; *synonyms* (n) class, manner, mode, type, order, species, sort.
- **MAHEPU** behaviour; *synonyms* (*n*) behavior, conduct, demeanor, demeanour, deportment, doings.
- **MAHIIIY. TIOBAHHSI** manipulation; *synonyms* (n) handling, management, treatment, use, control, intrigue, touch, execution, massage.
- MAHIIIYJISILISI manipulation; synonyms (n) handling, management, treatment, use, control, intrigue, touch, execution, massage.
- **МАНІРНИЙ** affected; *synonyms* (*adj*) artificial, unnatural, pompous, pretentious, stilted, pedantic, assumed, concerned, contrived, exaggerated, feigned, forced, pretended, snobbish, strained; *antonyms* (*adj*) unaffected, down-to-earth, natural, unchanged.
- **Manifect** manifesto; *synonyms* (n) declaration, pronouncement, pronunciamento, statement, notice, edict, policy, proposal, program.
- **MAHIΦECTALISI** demonstration; *synonyms* (n) parade, proof, argument, display, manifestation, presentation, demo, evidence, exhibition, illustration, show, testimony, showing, indication, (v) exposition.
- **мансарда** attic; *synonyms* (*n*) garret, loft, clerestory, bean, bonce, dome, floor, head, (*adj*) chaste, elegant, pure, classical, artistic, correct, disconcerted.
- MAHTIЯ gown; synonyms (n) dress, robe, uniform, tunic, gite, habit, paletot, scrubs, alb, blouse, chasuble, dalmatic, mozetta, scapulary, (v) clothe.
- **Μαπα** map; *synonyms* (n) design, graph, plat, diagram, mapping, picture, correspondence, (ν) chart, plan, plot, project.
- **марафон** marathon; *synonyms* (*n*) race, (*adj*) ambitious, classic, grand, heroic, impressive.
- **Μαρκα 1**. stamp; *synonyms* (n) mark, seal, brand, impression, cachet, emblem, (ν) imprint, print, cast, impress, trample, punch, characterize, shape, note, **2**. counter; *synonyms* (n) buffet, bench, reverse, (ν) reply, contradict, resist, answer, react, respond, retort, thwart, (*adj*) converse, antagonistic, contrary, opposite.
- **маркер** marker; *synonyms* (*n*) brand, mark, label, token, pointer, sign, signpost, tag, buoy, pen, ticket.

- MAPKETHHF marketing; synonyms (n) sale, commerce, merchandising, selling, distribution, advertising, campaign, nundination, promotion, publicity, staging, supplies.
- **МАРКШЕЙДЕР** surveyor; *synonyms* (n) inspector, assessor, visitor, engineer, husband, ranger, supercargo, auditor, traveler, voyager.
- **MAPJI9** canvas; *synonyms* (n) picture, duck, sail, sheet, (v) canvass, painting, tableau.
- **Mapmyp** marble; *synonyms* (*n*) cheetah, granite, leopard, (*v*) foolscap, pillar, table, (*adj*) rock, flint, stone, quartz, pellet, bullet, globule, spherule, bulb.
- **МАРМУРОВИЙ** marble; *synonyms* (*n*) cheetah, granite, leopard, (*v*) foolscap, pillar, table, (*adj*) rock, flint, stone, quartz, pellet, bullet, globule, spherule, bulb.
- марний 1. useless; synonyms (adj) futile, pointless, unnecessary, needless, abortive, fruitless, hopeless, worthless, idle, barren, superfluous, bootless, incompetent, ineffective, ineffectual; antonyms (adj) useful, helpful, competent, effective, convenient, necessary, valuable, 2. idle; synonyms (adj) inactive, indolent, lazy, free, baseless, frivolous, groundless, unfounded, empty, disengaged, flimsy, dead, jobless, light, (v) loaf; antonyms (adj) busy, active, employed, (v) change.
- MAPHOTPATHИЙ luxurious; synonyms (adj) voluptuous, costly, deluxe, lavish, sumptuous, epicurean, grand, luscious, comfortable, expensive, magnificent, opulent, rich, (n) lush, luxuriant; antonym (adj) cheap.
- **Maphotpatctbo** Waste; *synonyms* (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; *antonyms* (v) conserve, save.
- марнувати waste; *synonyms* (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; *antonyms* (v) conserve, save.
- MAPOKKAHEЦЬ moor; *synonyms* (n) marsh, moorland, plain, swamp, (ν) anchor, berth, fasten, tie, dock, secure, hitch, fix, bind, (adj) picket, lash.
- **MAPIII** march (березень); *synonyms* (n) walk, hike, parade, demonstration, ramble, trek, course, (v) journey, tramp, advance, border, pace, process, stride, stroll.
- MAPШИРУВАТИ march (березень); synonyms (n) walk, hike, parade, demonstration, ramble, trek, course, (v) journey, tramp, advance, border, pace, process, stride, stroll
- **маршрут** route; *synonyms* (*n*) course, path, road, direction, passage, avenue, channel, circuit, highway, itinerary, line, track, way, lane, (*v*) direct.
- Maca 1. mass; synonyms (adj) block, (n) bulk, heap, crowd, cluster, pile, bunch, collection, lump, magnitude, majority, accumulation, aggregate, amount, (v) flock, 2. volume; synonyms (n) size, book, mass, quantity, dimension, capacity, intensity, loudness, tome, journal, content, (adj) deal, pot, sight, power; antonym (n) quietness, 3. bulk; synonyms (n) volume, body, extent, thickness, scale, immensity, bigness, dimensions, freight, greatness, largeness, measure, (v) bulge, pouch, protrude; antonym (n) minority, 4. gross; synonyms (adj) crass, coarse, big, boorish, common, crude, fat,

- blunt, disgusting, broad, brutal, bulky, earthy, entire, (v) foul; **antonyms** (adj) attractive, (v) net, **5**. army; **synonyms** (n) legion, troop, host, battery, battalion, brigade, force, multitude, service, swarm, war, (adj) military, array, **6**. mountain (ropa); **synonyms** (n) mount, height, peak, stack, bundle, elevation, (v) mound, (adj) lead, millstone; **antonym** (n) dip.
- **MACAЖИСТ** rubber; *synonyms* (n) caoutchouc, condom, eraser, galosh, overshoe, prophylactic, arctic, golosh, gumshoe, (v) rubberize.
- **масивний** massive; *synonyms* (*adj*) bulky, large, gigantic, huge, big, enormous, great, heavy, immense, monumental, gross, colossal, considerable, gargantuan, impressive; *antonyms* (*adj*) tiny, small, insignificant, miniature.
- **Macka** mask; *synonyms* (n) cover, conceal, veil, camouflage, screen, blind, guise, curtain, pretense, blanket, (v) cloak, disguise, hide, dissemble, masquerade; *antonym* (v) disclose.
- **MACKYBAHHЯ** screening; *synonyms* (*n*) screen, sieving, concealment, cover, covering, masking, viewing, showing, display.
- **маскувати** mask; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, conceal, veil, camouflage, screen, blind, guise, curtain, pretense, blanket, (*v*) cloak, disguise, hide, dissemble, masquerade; *antonym* (*v*) disclose.
- масло 1. butter; *synonyms* (*n*) fat, oil, cement, (*v*) blarney, gloze, slaver, apply, cajole, coquet, daub, humor, inveigle, (*adj*) dough, pudding, clay, 2. oil; *synonyms* (*n*) petroleum, ointment, salve, cream, fuel, cerate, lotion, (*v*) lubricate, anoint, anele, glycerine.
- **MACJOPOБHЯ** dairy; *synonyms* (n) farm, laundry, bakery, bakeshop, confectionery, delicatessen, greengrocer, grocery, supermarket, buttery, factory, pasteurizer.
- MACOBИЙ 1. massive; *synonyms* (*adj*) bulky, large, gigantic, huge, big, enormous, great, heavy, immense, monumental, gross, colossal, considerable, gargantuan, impressive; *antonyms* (*adj*) tiny, small, insignificant, miniature, 2. mass (маса); *synonyms* (*adj*) block, (*n*) bulk, heap, crowd, cluster, pile, bunch, collection, lump, magnitude, majority, accumulation, aggregate, amount, (x) flock
- **MACOH** mason; *synonyms* (*n*) builder, freemason, stonemason, architect, artificer, artist, maker, manufacturer, smith, carpenter.
- **MacThJo** oil; *synonyms* (n) petroleum, fat, ointment, salve, cream, fuel, cerate, lotion, (ν) lubricate, anoint, anele, glycerine.
- **Macilita6 1.** gauge; *synonyms* (*n*) criterion, caliber, gage, calibre, (*v*) estimate, measure, calculate, assess, compute, fathom, make, reckon, forecast, scale, appraise, **2**. scope; *synonyms* (*n*) range, reach, domain, purview, room, expanse, area, compass, drift, extent, oscilloscope, gamut, chance, amplitude, (*v*) view, **3**. scale; *synonyms* (*n*) flake, degree, graduation, yardstick, rate, chip, fur, gradation, (*v*) ascend, climb, gauge, mount, weigh, rise, (*adj*) balance; *antonym* (*v*) descend, **4**. measure; *synonyms* (*n*) amount, beat, benchmark, measurement, meter, quantity, act, allotment, action, bill, dose, magnitude, (*v*) grade, evaluate, (*adj*) mete.

- **математика** mathematics; *synonyms* (*n*) math, arithmetic, maths, mathesis, sums, reckoning.
- математичний mathematical; synonyms (adj) mathematic, punctual, algebraic, arithmetical, numeric, numerical, scientific, algorithmic, analytical, arithmetic, computative, geometric, geometrical, measurable, numeral
- MATEPHK 1. continent; synonyms (n) land, delta, peninsula, area, boundary, capacity, circle, (adj) chaste, celibate, abstemious, pure, temperate, abstinent, sober, austere; antonym (adj) incontinent, 2. mainland; synonym (n) continent.
- **МАТЕРИНСТВО** maternity; *synonyms* (*n*) motherhood, motherliness, parenthood, gestation, pregnancy, fatherhood, fatherliness, maternalism, origin, paternity, maternology, mothership.
- **материнський** maternal; *synonyms* (*adj*) motherly, parental, paternal, agnate, agnatic, ancestral, protective, affectionate, caring, sympathetic, tender.
- Matepian 1. material; synonyms (n) body, cloth, matter, stuff, fabric, substance, (adj) bodily, corporal, corporeal, substantial, concrete, important, physical, real, essential,
  2. matter; synonyms (n) event, affair, business, concern, issue, material, incident, article, import, interest, item, subject, topic, (v) case, count,
  3. stuff; synonyms (n) force, gear, goods, stock, (v) cram, fill, jam, pack, pad, ram, squeeze, glut, gorge, load, shove; antonym (v)
- матеріальний 1. material; synonyms (n) body, cloth, matter, stuff, fabric, substance, (adj) bodily, corporal, corporeal, substantial, concrete, important, physical, real, essential, 2. tangible; synonyms (adj) material, actual, palpable, perceptible, evident, definite, sensible, genuine, adequate, commensurate, competent, discernible, enough, (n) applicable, available; antonym (adj) intangible.
- **Matepis** matter; *synonyms* (*n*) event, affair, business, concern, issue, material, substance, incident, article, body, import, interest, item, (*v*) case, count.
- мати 1. have; *synonyms* (v) contain, gain, bear, carry, get, hold, possess, accept, acquire, eat, suffer, take, allow, bring, conduct, 2. mother; *synonyms* (n) mamma, parent, (v) father, beget, engender, generate, care, sire, fuss, 3. bear (ведмідь); *synonyms* (v) abide, acquit, stand, afford, apply, assume, behave, brook, comport, convey, digest, endure, produce, support, teem, 4. parent; *synonyms* (n) mother, origin, source, forefather, prototype, precursor, (v) foster, rear, nurture, advance, advert, arouse, boot, cite, conjure; *antonym* (n) child, 5. own; *synonyms* (v) acknowledge, admit, have, concede, grant, confess, avow, enjoy, occupy, recognize, retain, keep, (*adj*) individual, proper, private, 6. possess; *synonyms* (v) wield, maintain, obsess, consume, feature, (n) hazard, (*adj*) own.
- **MATHЯ** purse; *synonyms* (n) pocket, bag, pouch, handbag, pocketbook, prize, container, pod, (ν) pucker, wrinkle, crease, contract.
- **матриця** matrix; *synonyms* (*n*) die, alembic, caldron, crucible, groundmass, uterus, matter, monotype, plasm, impression, mat, diagram, (*v*) gangue, course, gang.

- MATYCЯ 1. mummy; synonyms (n) mama, mamma, mammy, mom, momma, mommy, mum, mater, am, milliampere, secrecy, skeleton, (v) shrivel, 2. mum; synonyms (n) mother, mummy, (adj) silent, dumb, mute, quiet, taciturn.
- MATY match; synonyms (n) equal, competition, couple, duplicate, (v) agree, mate, meet, parallel, accord, correspond, harmonise, harmonize, balance, fellow, fit; antonyms (v) clash, contradict.
- **MAXATH** WaVe; *synonyms* (n) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (ν) brandish, flap, flutter, curl, flourish, swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon.
- MAXIHAUIЯ manipulation; synonyms (n) handling, management, treatment, use, control, intrigue, touch, execution, massage.
- MAXHYTH wave; *synonyms* (n) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (v) brandish, flap, flutter, curl, flourish, swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon.
- MALIATU feel; synonyms (v) experience, sense, consider, finger, handle, believe, deem, endure, find, (n) touch, atmosphere, feeling, sound, texture, air; antonym (v) observe.
- **машина 1**. engine; *synonyms* (n) locomotive, machine, contrivance, implement, instrument, mechanism, organ, tool, utensil, **2**. car; *synonyms* (n) automobile, auto, carriage, coach, truck, vehicle, tramcar, coupe, jalopy, gondola, motorcar, railcar, limousine, **3**. machine; *synonyms* (n) apparatus, device, car, gadget, organization, automaton, computer, robot, scheme, contraption, dispenser, **4**. apparatus (απαρατ); *synonyms* (n) appliance, plant, tackle, equipment, gear, machinery, outfit, rig, rigging, setup, tools, means.
- **машини** machinery; *synonyms* (*n*) apparatus, machine, enginery, equipment, plant, gear, mechanism, system, tackle, installation.
- MAIII/HICT 1. driver; synonyms (n) coachman, postboy, club, chaser, commuter, hoistman, pursuer, spanker, 2. operator; synonyms (n) driver, hustler, manipulator, agent, doer, speculator, actor, employee, clerk, businessperson, captain, financier, floozie, floozy, hooker.
- **МАШИННИЙ** mechanical; *synonyms* (*adj*) automatic, instinctive, unthinking, automated, habitual, mechanic, mechanized, perfunctory, routine, industrial, (*v*) involuntary, blind; *antonym* (*adj*) manual.
- **МАШИНОБУДУВАННЯ** engineering; *synonyms* (*n*) mechanism, technology, architecture, business, commerce, complicity, machinery, trade, production, (*adj*) manufacturing.
- **MASTHUK** balance; *synonyms* (*n*) poise, symmetry, excess, remainder, account, complement, counterpoise, credit, (*v*) counterbalance, adjust, offset, compensate, contrast, settle, audit; *antonyms* (*n*) imbalance, (*v*) unbalance.
- **Me6.11** furniture; *synonyms* (n) equipment, appointments, goods, fitting, movable, thing, movables, upholstery, apparatus, apparel, commodity, appurtenances, attire, (ν) stuff, garniture.
- мед honey; *synonyms* (n) darling, dear, beloved, love, sweetheart, dearest, duck, baby, molasses, sugar, flame, (v) sweeten.

- **медаль** medal; *synonyms* (*n*) decoration, award, prize, medallion, title, honor, laurels, palm.
- **ΜΕДИКАΜΕΗΤ** drug; *synonyms* (n) cure, medicine, anesthetic, medication, prescription, remedy, sedative, stimulant, (ν) dose, medicate, potion, (adj) chaff.
- **медицина** medicine; *synonyms* (n) cure, drug, medicament, medication, physic, remedy, therapy, treatment, cathartic, potion, preparation, antidote, (v) medicate.
- **медичний** medical; *synonyms* (*adj*) aesculapian, medicinal, medic, therapeutic, scientific, experimental, irrefutable, proven, quantifiable, (*n*) checkup, examination.
- медіана median; *synonyms* (*adj*) middle, medial, mesial, central, intermediate, medium, mid, normal, (*n*) mean, average, norm.
- **MEДIYM** medium; *synonyms* (*adj*) intermediate, fair, mid, (*n*) average, mediocre, mean, atmosphere, gobetween, instrument, means, vehicle, agency, channel, environment, mediocrity.
- **MECCETPA** nurse; *synonyms* (*n*) nurture, doctor, amah, (*v*) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- межа 1. border; synonyms (n) margin, brink, extremity, fringe, bed, boundary, brim, limit, skirt, (v) edge, verge, abut, adjoin, hem, surround; antonyms (n) middle, (v) center, 2. limit; synonyms (n) bound, (v) border, restrict, circumscribe, confine, curb, restrain, abridge, check, close, constrain, curtail, cramp, (prep) extent, end; antonyms (n) extension, minimum, (v) broaden, extend, 3. verge; synonyms (n) rim, side, threshold, edging, term, bounds, point, scepter, sceptre, wand, frontier, (v) bend, incline, tend, trend, 4. frontier; synonyms (n) line, perimeter, stint, backwoods, (adj) terminal, 5. bound; synonyms (v) leap, bounce, pounce, rebound, skip, vault, define, (adj) bandaged, (n) spring, jump, barrier, compass, hop, recoil, limitation; antonym (adj) free, **6**. boundary; *synonyms* (n) area, periphery, outskirts, circuit, circumference, division, pale, precinct, restriction, 7. line; synonyms (n) cord, file, house, breed, course, family, lineage, field, ancestry, cable, crease, row, stock, trace, (v) order, 8. ultimate; synonyms (adj) last, conclusive, final, supreme, definitive, decisive, elemental, extreme, farthest, furthest, eventual, primary, ending, finishing, (n) maximum; antonyms (adj) opening, first, 9. pale; synonyms (adj) ghastly, faint, wan, dull, light, pallid, weak, watery, cadaverous, colorless, faded, fair, feeble, (v) dim, blanch; antonyms (adj) dark, rosy, strong, brown.
- **MEXI** scope; *synonyms* (n) range, reach, domain, purview, room, expanse, area, compass, drift, extent, oscilloscope, gamut, chance, amplitude, (ν) view.
- межувати border; synonyms (n) margin, brink, extremity, fringe, bed, boundary, brim, limit, skirt, (v) edge, verge, abut, adjoin, hem, surround; antonyms (n) middle, (v) center.
- **MEJIOPALIS** improvement; *synonyms* (n) advancement, amelioration, betterment, correction, amendment, development, repair, gain, adjustment, advance, enhancement, headway, revision, growth,

- melioration; *antonyms* (n) decline, deterioration, downgrade.
- МЕЛЬНИК miller; synonym (n) muller.
- **мембрана** membrane; *synonyms* (*n*) diaphragm, film, skin, coat, covering, casing, coating, crust.
- MEMOPAHJYM memorandum; synonyms (n) memo, note, memorial, entry, letter, memoranda, notice, record
- **MEMOPIAJI** memorial; *synonyms* (*n*) commemoration, remembrance, memento, cenotaph, headstone, monument, record, epitaph, memory, token, tombstone, (*adj*) commemorative.
- **МЕМОРІАЛЬНИЙ** memorial; *synonyms* (n) commemoration, remembrance, memento, cenotaph, headstone, monument, record, epitaph, memory, token, tombstone, (adj) commemorative.
- мене me; synonym (n) myself.
- **менеджер** manager; *synonyms* (*n*) director, administrator, coach, executive, head, leader, boss, chief, controller, governor, handler, superintendent, superior, supervisor, ruler; *antonym* (*n*) underling.
- менеджмент management; synonyms (n) administration, conduct, guidance, command, control, direction, government, handling, leadership, charge, treatment, behavior, steerage, (v) manage, (adj) executive.
- мені me; synonym (n) myself.
- MEHIII less; synonyms (adv) lesser, (adj) inferior, wanting, lower, minor, secondary, subordinate, minus; antonyms (adv) more, (adj) additional.
- **MEHILE** less; *synonyms* (*adv*) lesser, (*adj*) inferior, wanting, lower, minor, secondary, subordinate, minus; *antonyms* (*adv*) more, (*adj*) additional.
- менший 1. less; synonyms (adv) lesser, (adj) inferior, wanting, lower, minor, secondary, subordinate, minus; antonyms (adv) more, (adj) additional, 2. lesser; synonyms (adj) less, insignificant, junior, petty, smaller; antonyms (adj) greater, major.
- меншість minority; *synonyms* (n) nonage, infancy, adolescence, inferiority, subordinacy, teens, childhood, faction, youth, (*adj*) few.
- **меню** menu; *synonyms* (n) fare, bill, card, carte, list, table, food, (v) cuisine.
- **Mep** mayor; *synonyms* (n) mayoralty, administrator, official, (adj) major.
- мережа 1. net; synonyms (adj) final, last, (n) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, (v) mesh, clear, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; antonym (v) gross, 2. network; synonyms (n) net, grid, netting, reticulation, meshwork, web, grating, lattice, system, complex, labyrinth, (v) link, communicate, contact, exchange.
- мереживо lace; *synonyms* (*n*) edging, lacing, net, galloon, (*v*) braid, enlace, entwine, interlace, bind, rope, tie, knot, tat, knit, (*adī*) string.
- MEP3EHHИЙ 1. wretched; synonyms (adj) unfortunate, unhappy, forlorn, pitiful, sad, deplorable, lamentable, low, mean, pathetic, piteous, pitiable, sorry, (v) miserable, poor; antonym (adj) happy, 2. nasty; synonyms (adj) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, awful, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, distasteful, evil,

- hurtful, obnoxious, raw, repulsive; *antonyms* (*adj*) agreeable, kind, pleasant, nice, charitable, lovely.
- MEP3OTHИЙ filthy; synonyms (adj) dirty, dingy, foul, nasty, unclean, disgusting, squalid, bawdy, awful, grimy, grubby, impure, indecent, muddy, ribald; antonyms (adj) clean, decent.
- мертвий dead; *synonyms* (*adj*) dull, lifeless, cold, defunct, inanimate, absolute, breathless, deceased, extinct, fallen, flat, gone, idle, (*adv*) right, absolutely; *antonyms* (*adj*) alive, animate, (*n*) living.
- мета 1. aim; synonyms (n) intent, objective, plan, target, design, intention, meaning, (v) purpose, direct, object, point, address, endeavor, aspire, propose, 2. goal; synonyms (n) aim, butt, destination, end, basket, ambition, aspiration, limit, finish, home, mark, mission, reason, wish, (v) bound, 3. purpose; synonyms (n) mind, effect, purport, resolve, motive, determination, function, goal, idea, cause, decision, drift, (v) project, intend, decide, 4. objective; synonyms (adj) dispassionate, fair, impartial, just, concrete, detached, accusative, impersonal, neutral, unbiased, unprejudiced, material, equitable, independent, substantial; antonyms (adj) biased, subjective, 5. design; synonyms (n) scheme, conception, drawing, arrangement, device, contrivance, copy, blueprint, (v) conceive, contrive, sketch, construct, arrange, contemplate, invent; antonym (n) chance, **6**. ambition; synonyms (n) ambitiousness, dream, drive, hope, desire, eagerness, longing; antonym (n) apathy, 7, effect: synonyms (n) consequence. product, result, sequel, aftermath, conclusion. impression, (v) accomplish, achieve, create, complete, do, bring, carry, execute, **8**. target; synonyms (n) focus, prey, mug, quarry, sucker, (v) level, grade, place, 9. intention (Hamip); synonyms (n) animus, import, motivation, contemplation, scope, sense, spirit, thought, will, destiny, 10. point; synonyms (n) peak, nib, edge, article, degree, dot, spot, phase, apex, detail, height, hint, matter, moment, (v) head, 11. object; synonyms (n) subject, substance, thing, being, something, (v) except, complain, demur, remonstrate, argue, protest, carp, disagree, deprecate, dissent; antonym (v) agree.
- метал metal; synonyms (n) ore, admixture, aggregate, alloy, clemency, favor, grace, honor, mercy, rock, character, courage, temper.
- **МЕТАЛЕВИЙ** metal; *synonyms* (n) ore, admixture, aggregate, alloy, clemency, favor, grace, honor, mercy, rock, character, courage, temper.
- **METAHHЯ** cast; *synonyms* (v) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (n) appearance, casting, mold.
- **METATH 1**. cast; *synonyms* (v) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (n) appearance, casting, mold, **2**. deposit; *synonyms* (n) charge, residue, guarantee, heap, hoard, lees, (v) bank, commit, store, fix, lay, repose, cast, file, leave; *antonym* (v) withdraw.
- **метафора** metaphor; *synonyms* (*n*) allegory, analogy, parable, trope, fable, figure, comparison, metonymy, symbol, hyperbole, tralatition, emblem, hope, personification, story.

- **метелик** butterfly; *synonyms* (n) chameleon, girl, iris, lady, rainbow, (adj) peacock, (v) bray, coquet, coquette, dally, flirt, kiss, mash, philander, romance.
- **METEOPU3M** wind (Birep); *synonyms* (n) air, gust, (v) coil, twist, curl, meander, turn, bend, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll, weave.
- **METKUM** brisk; *synonyms* (*adj*) active, agile, bracing, alive, bright, lively, quick, acute, alert, energetic, nimble, smart, sprightly, adroit, animated; *antonyms* (*adj*) slow, soporific.
- метод 1. method; *synonyms* (*n*) course, fashion, form, approach, arrangement, custom, formula, manner, order, plan, system, way, device, means, mode; *antonym* (*n*) disorder, 2. mode; *synonyms* (*n*) method, condition, guise, style, wise, appearance, fad, modality, process, rage, type, vogue, kind, habit, model, 3. way (дорога, шлях); *synonyms* (*n*) path, passage, road, route, track, direction, pathway, bearing, channel, headway, lane, progress, sort, street, (*v*) practice, 4. technique; *synonyms* (*n*) skill, procedure, knack, proficiency, 5. manner; *synonyms* (*n*) demeanor, air, carriage, look, aspect, attitude, conduct, deportment, expression, category, behavior, class, gait, (*adī*) description, character.
- **ΜΕΤΟДИКA** technique; *synonyms* (n) approach, means, method, skill, fashion, procedure, process, system, knack, style, manner, way, proficiency.
- **METOJUCT** supervisor; *synonyms* (n) superintendent, director, overseer, boss, chief, manager, foreman, administrator, controller, examiner, executive, head, inspector, superior, keeper.
- **методологія** methodology; *synonyms* (*n*) method, attitude, line, organization, slant, style, system, tactic.
- **METP** metre; *synonyms* (n) meter, measure, beat, rhythm, m, cadence, chiliad, g, grand, molarity, poem, thou, thousand, yard.
- **METPO** underground; *synonyms* (*adj*) clandestine, secret, covert, hidden, undercover, surreptitious, furtive, stealthy, belowground, guerilla, (*n*) metro, subway, tube, (*ν*) buried, underhand.
- метрополітен underground; *synonyms* (*adj*) clandestine, secret, covert, hidden, undercover, surreptitious, furtive, stealthy, belowground, guerilla, (*n*) metro, subway, tube, (*v*) buried, underhand.
- **METYHIHTHCЯ** fuss; *synonyms* (n) bustle, commotion, flap, ado, bother, disturbance, fidget, excitement, bickering, (v) flurry, bicker, fret, hubbub, complain, (adj) stir.
- METYIIHH 1. fuss; synonyms (n) bustle, commotion, flap, ado, bother, disturbance, fidget, excitement, bickering, (v) flurry, bicker, fret, hubbub, complain, (adj) stir, 2. stir; synonyms (v) arouse, budge, move, rouse, affect, agitate, excite, inspire, go, cause, foment, (n) movement, agitation, fuss, riot.
- **Mexahism 1.** gear; *synonyms* (n) equipment, outfit, tackle, apparatus, device, dress, baggage, belongings, clothing, cogwheel, contrivance, kit, luggage, stuff, (v) harness, **2.** mechanism; *synonyms* (n) machinery, appliance, machine, action, instrument, mechanics, agency, gear, vehicle, operation, means, medium, method, gadget,

- organization, **3**. machine; *synonyms* (*n*) implement, car, auto, automobile, tool, automaton, computer, mechanism, motorcar, organ, robot, scheme, utensil, contraption, dispenser, **4**. arrangement; *synonyms* (*n*) agreement, order, settlement, adjustment, array, classification, contract, design, distribution, plan, sequence, system, accommodation, appointment, accord.
- **MEXAHIK 1**. smith; *synonyms* (*n*) metalworker, architect, artificer, artist, bricklayer, builder, maker, manufacturer, mason, craftsman, **2**. operator; *synonyms* (*n*) driver, hustler, manipulator, agent, doer, speculator, actor, employee, clerk, businessperson, captain, financier, floozie, floozy, hooker.
- **Mexahika** mechanics; *synonyms* (*n*) mechanism, workings, procedure.
- **MEXAHIK-BOДІЙ** driver; *synonyms* (n) coachman, postboy, club, chaser, commuter, hoistman, pursuer, spanker.
- **МЕХАНІЧНИЙ** mechanical; *synonyms* (adj) automatic, instinctive, unthinking, automated, habitual, mechanic, mechanized, perfunctory, routine, industrial, (v) involuntary, blind; *antonym* (adj) manual.
- **Me**4 SWOrd; *synonyms* (*n*) blade, rapier, brand, steel, glaive, knife, brond, firebrand, fox, intoxicate, make, mark, marque, morglay, point.
- **мешканець** resident; *synonyms* (*adj*) native, inmate, local, nonmigratory, (*n*) inhabitant, occupant, dweller, tenant, citizen, lodger, occupier, representative, (*v*) resiant; *antonyms* (*adj*) migratory, (*n*) landlord, drifter.
- **MEIIIKAHIII** population; *synonyms* (*n*) inhabitants, people, nation, community, group, populace, public, society, folk, citizens, stock, universe.
- мешкати live (жити); synonyms (v) exist, inhabit, reside, subsist, abide, be, dwell, endure, stay, survive, (adj) alive, active, animate, living, (n) go; antonyms (adj) dead, inanimate.
- милий 1. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, correct, decent, delicate, difficult; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible, 2. pleasant; synonyms (adj) bright, acceptable, amiable, charming, jolly, kindly, nice, facetious, affable, attractive, cheerful, clear, comfortable, congenial, delightful; antonyms (adj) disagreeable, disgusting, foul, gruesome, harsh, nasty, repugnant, shocking, terrible, unwelcome, appalling, discordant, frosty, grisly, rough.
- **MUJICTL** mercy; *synonyms* (*n*) clemency, compassion, kindness, favor, pity, charity, forgiveness, grace, humanity, leniency, pardon, benevolence, forbearance, mercifulness, quarter; *antonym* (*n*) blame.
- **мило** soap; *synonyms* (*n*) cleanser, run, (*v*) lather, bribe, grease, oil, wheedle, cajole, bathe, clean, flog, inveigle, lash, (*adj*) episodic, maudlin.
- **милосердний** charitable; *synonyms* (*adj*) merciful, benevolent, clement, gentle, kind, bountiful, generous, humane, kindly, lenient, liberal, magnanimous, philanthropic, compassionate, forbearing; *antonyms* (*adj*) unforgiving, mean, nasty, uncharitable.
- **милосердя 1**. mercy; *synonyms* (*n*) clemency, compassion, kindness, favor, pity, charity, forgiveness, grace, humanity, leniency, pardon, benevolence,

- forbearance, mercifulness, quarter; *antonym* (*n*) blame, **2**. charity; *synonyms* (*n*) bounty, dole, aid, generosity, liberality, mercy, virtue, gift, (*v*) almsgiving, (*adj*) benignity; *antonyms* (*n*) miserliness, intolerance.
- **МИЛЯ** mile; *synonyms* (*n*) knot, burl, gnarl, grayback, (*v*) cubit, ell, fathom, foot, furlong, hand, inch, line, nail, palm, rood.
- **мимовільний 1**. spontaneous; *synonyms* (*adj*) gratuitous, automatic, instinctive, natural, impromptu, improvised, extemporaneous, impetuous, impulsive, offhand, unaffected, involuntary, easy, (v) voluntary, free; *antonyms* (*adj*) planned, forced, prearranged, prepared, **2**. unconscious; *synonyms* (*adj*) unaware, ignorant, subconscious, unwitting, oblivious, insensible, senseless, unintentional, spontaneous, innocent, unknowing, unacquainted, unapprized, unsuspecting; *antonyms* (*adj*) conscious, awake, deliberate.
- минати pass; synonyms (v) flow, deliver, give, happen, lead, move, offer, overtake, live, advance, die, elapse, exceed, (adi) go, run; antonym (v) fail.
- минуле 1. past; *synonyms* (*adj*) beyond, bygone, former, old, back, earlier, gone, over, preceding, preterit, previous, (*n*) history, (*adv*) by, before, (*prf*) along; *antonyms* (*adj*) contemporary, current, (*prep*) within, (*n*) future, present, prospect, 2. history; *synonyms* (*n*) account, chronicle, story, annals, background, narrative, record, explanation, yesteryear, narration, past, life, (*v*) tale.
- минулий 1. past; synonyms (adj) beyond, bygone, former, old, back, earlier, gone, over, preceding, preterit, previous, (n) history, (adv) by, before, (prf) along; antonyms (adj) contemporary, current, (prep) within, (n) future, present, prospect, 2. former; synonyms (adj) antecedent, anterior, foregoing, prior, original, deceased, past, foremost, primary, ancient, departed, last, late, older, (n) predecessor, 3. ancient; synonyms (adj) aged, antiquated, obsolete, antique, archaic, hoary, primitive, olden, antediluvian, dated, outmoded, prehistoric, primeval, primordial, (n) elder; antonym (adj) modern, 4. last; synonyms (v) endure, continue, hold, exist, live, dwell, (n) abide, conclusion, (adj) extreme, closing, final, ultimate, conclusive, concluding, farthest; antonyms (n) opening, (adj) first.
- **MUHYTU** pass; *synonyms* (v) flow, deliver, give, happen, lead, move, offer, overtake, live, advance, die, elapse, exceed, (*adj*) go, run; *antonym* (v) fail.
- Mup peace; synonyms (n) calm, harmony, serenity, hush, repose, ease, agreement, amity, accord, composure, concord, coolness, heartsease, order, (adj) quiet; antonyms (n) noise, chaos, conflict, uproar, commotion.
- мирний 1. peaceful; synonyms (adj) calm, gentle, peaceable, quiet, even, meek, peace, placid, silent, amicable, composed, halcyon, mild, serene, tranquil; antonyms (adj) aggressive, noisy, tense, violent, 2. pacific; synonyms (adj) conciliatory, moderate, peaceful, bland, easy, sober, still.
- MUPCЬКИЙ lay; synonyms (v) place, put, fix, set, deposit, install, lie, rest, invest, bear, allay, arrange, (adj) secular, (n) ballad, pitch.
- **МИС** cape; *synonyms* (n) cloak, headland, ness, shawl, coat, mantle, point, promontory.

- MHCKA 1. bowl; synonyms (n) basin, pot, plate, container, hollow, stadium, arena, depression, bowlful, trough, (v) hurl, roll, toss, troll, trundle, 2. basin; synonyms (n) bowl, dock, tank, washbasin, washbowl, basinful, cavity, cup, lavatory, pool, sink, washstand, dip, 3. plate; synonyms (n) dish, leaf, home, engraving, disc, armor, base, board, denture, plaque, plateful, (v) gild, sheet, cover, coat.
- MUCJIEHHH thought; synonyms (v) observation, (n) notion, idea, opinion, conception, consideration, impression, belief, feeling, reflection, sentiment, concept, judgment, apprehension, attention; antonym (n) fact.
- мислено mentally; *synonyms* (*adv*) ideally, inward, inwardly, internally, intimately, rationally, academically, privately, thoroughly.
- **мисливець** hunter; *synonyms* (*n*) chaser, huntsman, seeker, courser, woodman, driver, beast, cattle, charger, follower, forester, horse, nag, palfrey, racer.
- MHCTEUTBO 1. art; synonyms (n) know-how, skill, talent, trick, artistry, craft, dexterity, science, accomplishment, aptitude, artfulness, trade, work, address, adroitness, 2. skill; synonyms (n) artifice, ability, capability, capacity, knack, faculty, finesse, cleverness, competence, cunning, expertise, facility, handicraft, proficiency, (adj) art; antonyms (n) clumsiness, inability, incompetence.
- **МИСТЕЦЬКИЙ** artistic; *synonyms* (*adj*) esthetic, aesthetic, elegant, ingenious, pleasing, attic, creative, imaginative, inventive, tasteful.
- **митець** artist (художник); *synonyms* (n) actor, artificer, master, player, musician, performer, artisan, creator, entertainer, maker, architect, stylist.
- **MHTH** Wash; *synonyms* (v) rinse, paint, bathe, clean, lave, moisten, mop, scour, scrub, color, tint, lap, (n) soak, ablution, washing; *antonym* (v) dirty.
- **MHTHUCH** Wash; *synonyms* (v) rinse, paint, bathe, clean, lave, moisten, mop, scour, scrub, color, tint, lap, (n) soak, ablution, washing; *antonym* (v) dirty.
- **МИТНИЙ** custom; *synonyms* (*n*) tradition, habit, convention, practice, usage, use, fashion, impost, method, observance, order, rite, ritual, (*v*) accustom, (*adj*) bespoke.
- **MUTHUK** surveyor; *synonyms* (*n*) inspector, assessor, visitor, engineer, husband, ranger, supercargo, auditor, traveler, voyager.
- **MUTO 1.** customs; *synonyms* (*n*) custom, duty, impost, civilization, mores, background, conduct, culture, ethnicity, etiquette, excise, habits, society, tradition, traditions, **2.** duty; *synonyms* (*n*) business, function, commitment, assignment, charge, chore, obligation, dues, job, must, office, part, responsibility, tax, work, **3.** toll; *synonyms* (*n*) fee, price, cost, due, levy, tariff, assessment, damage, expense, bell, (*v*) ring, chime, peal, sound, clank, **4.** tax; *synonyms* (*n*) burden, taxation, toll, imposition, weight, (*v*) assess, task, accuse, impose, load, cess, strain, drain, appraise, encumber.
- **MUTTH 1.** Washing; *synonyms* (n) laundry, wash, laundering, lavation, cleaning, purification, airstream, backwash, bucking, race, slipstream, washables, (adj) cleansing, clysmic, **2.** Wash; *synonyms* (v) rinse, paint,

- bathe, clean, lave, moisten, mop, scour, scrub, color, tint, lap, (*n*) soak, ablution, washing; *antonym* (*v*) dirty.
- мить 1. instant; synonyms (adj) immediate, present, exigent, prompt, clamant, crying, (n) moment, flash, jiffy, minute, point, second, tick, (v) pressing, urgent; antonyms (adj) gradual, long-term, 2. moment; synonyms (n) importance, consequence, instant, import, bit, time, weight, hour, matter, juncture, magnitude, occasion, significance, trice, twinkling, 3. second; synonyms (n) sec, wink, countenance, third, (v) back, endorse, support, encourage, forward, help, advocate, (adj) latter, further, secondary, (pron) additional; antonym (adj) first.
- **миша** mouse; *synonyms* (*n*) track, trail, hunt, trace, coward, bruise, (*v*) sneak, creep, steal, snoop, seek, abstract, cabbage, cower, crawl.
- **міграція** migration; *synonyms* (*n*) exodus, movement, journey, transmigration, departure, exile, colonization, metempsychosis, evacuation, flood, travel, (*v*) flit, flitting.
- **МІДНИЙ** copper (мідь); *synonyms* (n) bronze, bull, cop, fuzz, gold, pig, cent, coin, ingot, nugget, cuprum, brown, copperplate, auburn, blur.
- **мідь** copper; *synonyms* (*n*) bronze, bull, cop, fuzz, gold, pig, cent, coin, ingot, nugget, cuprum, brown, copperplate, auburn, blur.
- Mix between; synonyms (prep) amid, among, amidst, amongst, connecting, concerning, inserted, interpolated, intervening, involving, linking, (adv) betwixt, atween, (adi) middle, intermediate.
- міжнародний international; synonyms (adj) worldwide, global, intercontinental, universal, external, away, broad, comprehensive, extensive, extraneous, important, major, outside, significant, sweeping; antonyms (adj) national, insular, local.
- Miй mine; synonyms (n) dig, excavation, pit, fund, vein, shaft, (v) excavate, sap, burrow, exploit, bore, tunnel, undermine, (adj) delve, gouge.
- **мікрофон 1**. microphone; *synonym* (*n*) mike, **2**. mike; *synonym* (*n*) microphone.
- **мікрохвилі** microwave; *synonyms* (*v*) cook, atomise, atomize, fix, nuke, warm, zap, vaporize.
- **mixcrypa** mixture; *synonyms* (n) mix, alloy, concoction, assortment, blend, hodgepodge, jumble, medley, miscellany, admixture, combination, commixture, compound, compost, melange.
- мілина shallow; *synonyms* (*adj*) shoal, superficial, low, cursory, petty, little, sketchy, flimsy, frivolous, simple, surface, dull, mean, airy, facile; *antonyms* (*adj*) deep, bottomless.
- мілкий shallow; *synonyms* (*adj*) shoal, superficial, low, cursory, petty, little, sketchy, flimsy, frivolous, simple, surface, dull, mean, airy, facile; *antonyms* (*adj*) deep, bottomless.
- **мільйон** million; *synonyms* (*n*) meg, myriad, heap, mint. **MIHA** bomb; *synonyms* (*n*) grenade, shell, dud, rocket, bullet, explosive, fiasco, failure, (*v*) blast, bombard, fail, flop, explode.
- **мінера**л mineral; *synonyms* (*adj*) inanimate, (*n*) rock, petroleum, granite, limestone, marble, sandstone.

- **мінеральний** mineral; *synonyms* (*adj*) inanimate, (*n*) rock, petroleum, granite, limestone, marble, sandstone.
- **мініатюра** miniature; *synonyms* (*adj*) little, diminutive, tiny, slight, minute, model, small, wee, midget, dwarf, teeny, infinitesimal, (*n*) toy, copy, illumination; *antonyms* (*adj*) enormous, extra-large, full-scale, full-size, large, (*n*) huge.
- мініатюрний miniature; synonyms (adj) little, diminutive, tiny, slight, minute, model, small, wee, midget, dwarf, teeny, infinitesimal, (n) toy, copy, illumination; antonyms (adj) enormous, extra-large, fullscale, full-size, large, (n) huge.
- мінімальний 1. minimum; synonyms (adj) minimal, least, smallest, hint, trace, nominal, tiniest, meager, minim, modicum, negligible, basic, (n) atom, minion, dab; antonyms (n) maximum, most, 2. minimal; synonyms (adj) minimum, minute, insignificant, marginal, depleted, down, dwindling, limited, plain, scanty, short, small, token, trifling, austere; antonym (adi) maximal.
- MiHimym minimum; synonyms (adj) minimal, least, smallest, hint, trace, nominal, tiniest, meager, minim, modicum, negligible, basic, (n) atom, minion, dab; antonyms (n) maximum, most.
- minictepctbo 1. ministry; synonyms (n) cabinet, government, clergy, ministration, administration, clericals, prelacy, presbytery, aid, bureaucracy, channel, (v) attendance, attendants, attention, (adj) abandoned, 2. administration; synonyms (n) management, direction, organization, running, power, execution, executive, leadership, reign, rule, supervision, department, application, incumbency, ministry, 3. office; synonyms (n) charge, agency, duty, function, position, commission, appointment, division, authority, berth, bureau, job, part, place, post.
- **міністерський 1**. ministerial; synonyms (adj) clerical, pastoral, priestly, sacerdotal, subservient, theocratic, ministral, prelatical, religious, attendant, contributive, serving, **2**. cabinet; synonyms (n) case, closet, locker, press, cupboard, chamber, console, sideboard, board, council
- Minictp 1. minister; synonyms (n) pastor, envoy, priest, deputy, divine, ambassador, churchman, clergyman, cleric, curate, ecclesiastic, agent, messenger, (v) supply, administer, 2. secretary; synonyms (n) clerk, escritoire, minister, desk, secretaire, bailiff, factor, repository, (v) amanuensis, scribe, writer, scrivener.
- мінливий 1. variable; synonyms (adj) unstable, changeable, fickle, inconstant, capricious, erratic, fitful, mutable, uncertain, unsettled, unsteady, fluctuating, inconsistent, shifting, variant; antonyms (adj) constant, fixed, invariable, regular, set, smooth, 2. uncertain; synonyms (adj) ambiguous, doubtful, dubious, questionable, vague, chancy, equivocal, indistinct, precarious, suspicious, unsafe, unsure, variable, debatable, (v) indefinite; antonyms (adj) certain, definite, clear, decisive, sure, decided, inevitable, safe, strongminded, unquestionable.
- MIHJIMBICTЬ 1. inequality; synonyms (n) disparity, difference, disproportion, dissimilitude, injustice, variance, variation, discrepancy, imbalance, inequity,

- unevenness, unfairness, (adj) odds; antonyms (n) equality, justice, parity, 2. uncertainty; synonyms (n) doubt, doubtfulness, distrust, indecision, suspicion, suspense, hesitation, irresolution, dubiety, incertitude, question, dubiousness, indecisiveness, ambiguity, (adj) instability; antonyms (n) certainty, confidence, decisiveness, clarity, 3. mobility; synonyms (n) movableness, motion, movement, (adj) versatility.
- MIHYBATH 1. mine; synonyms (n) dig, excavation, pit, fund, vein, shaft, (v) excavate, sap, burrow, exploit, bore, tunnel, undermine, (adj) delve, gouge, 2. undermine; synonyms (v) subvert, weaken, mine, cave, damage, sabotage, break, impair, counteract, countermine, enfeeble, invalidate, (n) overthrow, (adj) dent, dint; antonyms (v) strengthen, bolster.
- **MiHyc** minus; synonyms (n) negative, disadvantage, subtraction, (v) bereft, lack, bereaved, denuded, (adj) minor, less, lacking, deficient, lesser, short, (adv) without; antonym (prep) plus.
- міняти 1. change; *synonyms* (*n*) shift, alteration, barter, modification, variation, move, (*v*) exchange, alter, adapt, alternate, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn; *antonyms* (*v*) stay, leave, idle, maintain, 2. vary; *synonyms* (*v*) change, differ, modify, deviate, diverge, diversify, modulate, depart, disagree, fluctuate, variegate, contrast, dissent, range, interchange, 3. cast; *synonyms* (*v*) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, flgure, heave, mould, (*n*) appearance, casting, mold.
- **ΜΙΗΤΙΙCЯ 1.** vary; *synonyms* (*v*) alter, change, differ, modify, alternate, deviate, diverge, diversify, modulate, depart, disagree, fluctuate, shift, variegate, contrast, **2**. alter; *synonyms* (*v*) adapt, move, adjust, affect, amend, castrate, convert, correct, transform, turn, vary, distort, edit, emasculate, exchange; *antonym* (*v*) maintain, **3**. change; *synonyms* (*n*) alteration, barter, modification, variation, adjustment, alternation, amendment, commutation, conversion, development, (*v*) cash, switch, transpose, twist, commute; *antonyms* (*v*) stay, leave, idle.
- Mipa 1. measure; synonyms (n) amount, criterion, extent, beat, benchmark, degree, estimate, measurement, meter, quantity, act, allotment, action, (v) grade, appraise, 2. gauge; synonyms (n) caliber, gage, calibre, (v) measure, calculate, assess, compute, fathom, make, reckon, forecast, scale, evaluate, figure, guess, 3. extent; synonyms (n) extension, amplitude, expanse, bulk, compass, distance, boundary, breadth, dimension, gauge, length, purview, reach, scope, (v) area, 4. degree; synonyms (n) class, condition, level, order, place, rank, title, status, caste, gradation, height, plane, point, quality, rate.
- **МІРИЛО** criterion; *synonyms* (*n*) benchmark, measure, norm, test, canon, mark, criterium, gauge, pattern, principle, proof, rule, touchstone.
- міркування 1. thinking; *synonyms* (*v*) conceive, (*adj*) intelligent, thoughtful, meditative, (*n*) thought, consideration, idea, opinion, reasoning, intellection, conception, contemplation, view, attention, cerebration, 2. reflection; *synonyms* (*n*) observation, cogitation, deliberation, meditation, musing, reflexion, notion,

introspection, image, repercussion, animadversion, echo, expression, likeness, manifestation, 3. consideration; synonyms (n) concern, respect, care, reflection, account, notice, tact, thoughtfulness, advisement, consequence, caution, compassion, compensation, (v) regard, condition; antonyms (n) thoughtlessness, impulsiveness, inconsideration, 4. reasoning; synonyms (n) inference, argumentation, deduction, argument, logic, sense, judgment, reason, analysis, philosophy, (adj) rational, conscious, mental, 5. speculation; synonyms (n) hypothesis, guess, venture, guesswork, gamble, adventure, conjecture, supposition, surmise, theory, risk, assumption, chance, rumination, stake, 6. thought; synonyms (n) impression, belief, feeling, sentiment, concept, apprehension, design, fancy, mind, plan, thinking, heed, intention, inspiration, suggestion; antonym (n) fact.

міркувати 1. reflect; synonyms (v) deliberate, ponder, cogitate, consider, contemplate, meditate, muse, mirror, mull, think, bethink, echo, excogitate, ruminate, shine, 2. contemplate; synonyms (v) speculate, look, reflect, gaze, behold, entertain, intend, reason, study, see, watch, wonder, design, digest, expect, 3. deliberate; synonyms (adj) careful, calculated, circumspect, slow, thoughtful, conscious, considered, intended, intentional, knowing, leisurely, (v) consult, debate, confer, discuss; antonyms (adj) accidental, chance, unintentional, hasty, ingenuous, involuntary, spontaneous, 4. think; synonyms (v) believe, reckon, estimate, guess, hold, imagine, regard, suppose, conjecture, suspect, assume, conceive, deem, envisage, esteem; antonym (v) forget, 5. reason; synonyms (n) mind, account, intellect, occasion, argument, object, purpose, rationality, understanding, basis, explanation, (v) cause, argue, conclude, deduce.

**Мірошник** miller; synonym (n) muller.

**міряти** measure; *synonyms* (*n*) amount, criterion, extent, beat, benchmark, degree, estimate, measurement, meter, quantity, act, allotment, action, (*v*) grade, appraise.

Mic miss; synonyms (v) lack, lose, fail, jump, omit, overlook, long, drop, escape, (n) maid, girl, want, fille, missy, (adj) fault; antonym (v) perceive.

**MICHTU** mix; *synonyms* (n) mixture, concoction, (v) alloy, blend, intermingle, mingle, combine, compound, confound, intermix, join, meld, merge, aggregate, admix; *antonym* (v) separate.

**Micis** mission; *synonyms* (n) commission, delegation, deputation, job, assignment, charge, duty, goal, legation, chore, delegacy, errand, task, function, business.

**MicT** bridge; synonyms (n) span, viaduct, pontoon, tie, crossing, nosepiece, bluff, (v) stretch, connect, link, traverse, cross.

**містерія** mystery; *synonyms* (n) conundrum, arcanum, enigma, secret, mysteriousness, puzzle, secrecy, craft, perplexity, poser, problem, riddle, whodunit, cabala, question; *antonyms* (n) clearness, explanation.

MICTE4KO town; synonyms (n) city, borough, township, village, community, burgh, townspeople, civilization, metropolis, (adj) municipal, urban, local.

**містити 1**. contain; *synonyms* (v) comprise, accommodate, comprehend, curb, include, admit, bear,

carry, check, confine, control, embrace, hold, restrain, restrict; *antonyms* (v) exclude, express, **2**. include; *synonyms* (v) contain, embody, encompass, insert, implicate, involve, number, add, enclose, have, incorporate, imply, allow, append, attach.

Mictricts 1. capacity; synonyms (n) capability, aptitude, capacitance, function, intelligence, talent, might, dimension, content, endowment, faculty, gift, measure, position, (adj) ability; antonyms (n) inability, incapability, 2. volume; synonyms (n) bulk, size, book, magnitude, mass, quantity, amount, capacity, intensity, loudness, tome, journal, (adj) deal, pot, sight; antonym (n) quietness.

**MicTo 1**. city; *synonyms* (*n*) town, borough, burgh, metropolis, municipality, village, (*adj*) municipal, civic, urban, public; *antonym* (*adj*) rural, **2**. town; *synonyms* (*n*) city, township, community, townspeople, civilization, (*adj*) local.

**micue 1**. place; *synonyms* (n) position, domicile, office, order, spot, attitude, (v) post, arrange, fix, lay, locate, rank, station, deposit, install; antonym (v) remove, 2. seat; synonyms (n) place, bench, base, backside, behind. bottom, buttocks, chair, posterior, rear, rump, residence, (v) put, contain, hold, 3. situation; synonyms (n) employment, job. matter, circumstance, circumstances. condition, location, point, seat, site, aspect, bearing, berth, case, environment, 4. appointment; synonyms (n) assignment, date, designation, engagement, fitting, rendezvous, conference, election, assignation, commission, encounter, meeting, naming, selection, allotment, 5. station (станція); synonyms (n) standing, depot, dignity, quarter, room, situation, stance, state, appointment, sphere, degree, estate, (v) stand, set, establish, 6. position; synonyms (n) opinion, placement, arrangement, posture, status, disposition, belief, character, footing, function, orientation, perspective, (v) grade, pose, poise, 7. room; synonyms (n) chamber, latitude, occasion, apartment, hall, house, opening, opportunity, expanse, extent, flat, margin, area, cabin, (v) board, 8. space; synonyms (n) length, gap, period, scope, void, distance, emptiness, interval, range, field, volume, blank, cosmos, leeway, (v) separate, 9. spot; synonyms (n) blot, speck, stain, dot, dapple, dirty, mark, space, (v) blemish, soil, fleck, speckle, daub, flaw,

місцевий 1. local; synonyms (adj) native, sectional, topical, home, indigenous, municipal, nearby, civic, limited, internal, national, parochial, provincial, restricted, (n) resident; antonyms (adj) foreign, universal, worldwide, 2. indigenous; synonyms (adj) aboriginal, autochthonous, domestic, endemic, vernacular, congenital, inherent, innate, autochthonal, autochthonic, 3. native; synonyms (adj) inborn, natural, inbred, connatural, genuine, intrinsic, natal, pure, radical, artless, (n) autochthon, citizen, inhabitant, indigene, local; antonyms (adj) learned, (n) stranger, immigrant, imported

місцевість 1. locality; synonyms (n) area, district, neighborhood, place, position, quarter, spot, vicinity, point, region, section, scene, environs, habitat, territory, 2. ground; synonyms (n) base, cause, land, floor,

- reason, dirt, field, soil, account, country, basis, (v) bottom, found, establish, fix; antonym (n) ceiling, 3. country; synonyms (n) state, nation, home, commonwealth, kingdom, realm, nationality, province, terrain, arena, (adj) rural, rustic, public, provincial, arable; antonyms (n) city, (adj) urban, 4. spot; synonyms (n) blot, speck, stain, dot, dapple, dirty, location, mark, space, (v) blemish, fleck, speckle, daub, flaw, mottle, 5. terrain; synonyms (n) ground, grounds, topography, scenery.
- MICLE3HAXOAXEHHS 1. site; synonyms (n) place, position, locate, location, point, room, seat, situation, space, spot, area, ground, locality, (v) post, set, 2. location; synonyms (n) localization, orientation, berth, emplacement, fix, lieu, locale, locating, scene, setting, attitude, bearing, address, placement, positioning.
- MICHEPEBYBAHHЯ 1. residence; synonyms (n) abode, dwelling, home, house, accommodation, domicile, lodging, occupancy, habitation, mansion, place, manse, abidance, apartment, hall, 2. Site; synonyms (n) position, locate, location, point, room, seat, situation, space, spot, area, ground, locality, setting, (v) post, set.
- **ΜΙCΙΙΕΠΟJΙΟЖЕНΗЯ** situation; *synonyms* (n) place, employment, position, post, job, matter, circumstance, circumstances, condition, location, office, point, seat, site, rank.
- міський 1. urban; synonyms (adj) city, civic, metropolitan, municipal, public, citified, community, urbanized, urbicolous, oppidan, burghal, central, cultivated, developed, downtown; antonyms (adj) rural, country, rustic, 2. civic; synonyms (adj) urban, national, civil, communal, local; antonym (adj) private, 3. municipal; synonyms (adj) town, administrative, domestic, executive.
- місяць 1. moon; synonyms (n) lunation, moonlight, moonshine, satellite, epoch, bootleg, (v) daydream, dream, fantasize, bemuse, gaze, glare, meditate, (adj) quicksilver, weathercock, 2. month; synonyms (n) moon, day, hour, minute, quarter, quinquennium, year, moneth, second, time, week.
- MICЯЧНИЙ monthly; synonyms (adj) menstrual, mensal, periodic, (n) magazine, periodical, journal, bulletin, paper, publication, review, weekly, quarterly.
- MITUHΓ 1. rally; *synonyms* (n) assembly, meeting, convention, gathering, (v) banter, gather, muster, congregate, convene, assemble, chaff, collect, converge, meet, mobilize; *antonym* (v) demobilize, 2. meeting (360pu); *synonyms* (n) confluence, concourse, conference, congress, council, appointment, caucus, encounter, junction, convocation, conclave, forum, confrontation, assignation, congregation; *antonym* (n) divergence.
- **Мітити** mark; *synonyms* (n) brand, evidence, score, character, heed, impression, imprint, sign, feature, (v) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (adj) notice.
- MITKA 1. label; *synonyms* (n) name, brand, tag, title, designation, earmark, docket, group, (v) mark, call, classify, check, designate, distinguish, identify, 2.

- mark; *synonyms* (n) evidence, score, character, heed, impression, imprint, sign, feature, badge, (v) blemish, characterize, grade, label, differentiate, (*adj*) notice.
- **мiφ** myth; synonyms (n) fable, legend, story, tale, allegory, fiction, fabrication, figment, tradition, conceit, maggot.
- міфічний fabulous; synonyms (adj) incredible, mythical, fabled, legendary, amazing, fab, imaginary, marvelous, mythological, spectacular, terrific, wonderful, unreal, brilliant, excellent; antonym (adj) awful.
- міцний 1. tough; synonyms (adj) hard, difficult, tenacious, strong, arduous, firm, hardy, laborious, rugged, severe, stout, sturdy, rough, (n) bully, rowdy; antonyms (adj) tender, easy, weak, flimsy, soft, feeble, lightweight, simple, 2. fast; synonyms (adj) dissolute, agile, debauched, fixed, hurried, instant, quick, rapid, staunch, brisk, colorfast, dissipated, (adv) soon, close, (n) diet; antonyms (adj) sluggish, loose, (adv) slow, slowly, leisurely, (v) gorge, (n) binge, 3. strong; synonyms (adj) intense, powerful, able, deep, stable, steady, cogent, durable, forcible, good, influential, lusty, potent, rigid, robust; antonyms (adj) bland, delicate, faint, frail, mild, pale, slight, unconvincing, cowardly, diluted, dull, exhausted, imperceptible, tired, watery, 4. stable; synonyms (adj) permanent, reliable, constant, fast, lasting, secure, stationary, enduring, persistent, solid, sound, immovable, certain, set, immobile; antonyms (adj) unstable, shaky, wobbly, dangerous, precarious, rickety, volatile, 5. stiff; synonyms (adj) formal, inflexible, numb, rigorous, austere, awkward, buckram, ceremonious, harsh, prim, (adv) tight, (n) stark, cadaver, corpse, body; antonyms (adj) relaxed, flexible, floppy, supple, free, pliable, **6**. substantial; synonyms (adi) actual, real, considerable, important, palpable. significant, essential, momentous, concrete, ample, big, corporeal, grave, hearty, heavy; antonyms (adj) insignificant, insubstantial, small, ethereal, fine, worthless, 7. firm; synonyms (n) company, business, (adj) compact, determined, resolute, steadfast, decisive, dense, stiff, stubborn, adamant, crisp, decided, established, (v) faithful; antonyms (adj) irresolute, hesitant, limp, liquid, soggy, 8. solid; synonyms (adj) consistent, massive, substantial, material, thick, whole, full, convincing, muscular, sober, dependable, noble, profound, sure, tough; antonyms (adj) unreliable, gaseous, permeable, runny, transparent, 9. robust; synonyms (adj) healthy, athletic, brawny, vigorous, mighty, healthful, masculine, energetic, hefty, rich, stalwart, strapping, hale, forceful, large; antonym (adj)
- MIUHICTЬ strength; *synonyms* (n) force, power, energy, firmness, intensity, vigor, endurance, potency, stability, health, soundness, amount, brawn, (v) might, capacity; *antonyms* (n) weakness, frailty, flaw, shortcoming.
- MIUHO 1. fast; *synonyms* (*adj*) dissolute, firm, agile, debauched, fixed, hurried, instant, quick, rapid, staunch, brisk, (*adv*) soon, hard, close, (*n*) diet; *antonyms* (*adj*) sluggish, loose, (*adv*) slow, slowly, leisurely, (*v*) gorge, (*n*) binge, 2. firmly; *synonyms* (*adv*) resolutely, securely, solidly, steadfastly, strongly, unwaveringly, decidedly, closely, decisively, persistently, positively,

- rigidly, stably, surely, (adj) fast; antonyms (adv) loosely, weakly, halfheartedly, leniently, uncertainly.
- MIIЦЬ 1. strength; synonyms (n) force, power, energy, firmness, intensity, vigor, endurance, potency, stability, health, soundness, amount, brawn, (ν) might, capacity; antonyms (n) weakness, frailty, flaw, shortcoming, 2. might; synonyms (ν) can, could, main, (n) ability, influence, puissance, strength, vehemence, authority, capability, efficacy, command, mightiness, muscle, nerve.
- мішати mix; *synonyms* (n) mixture, concoction, (v) alloy, blend, intermingle, mingle, combine, compound, confound, intermix, join, meld, merge, aggregate, admix; *antonym* (v) separate.
- мішень 1. target; synonyms (n) butt, goal, mark, object, objective, ambition, destination, end, intent, focus, intention, (v) aim, point, purpose, direct, 2. aim; synonyms (n) plan, target, design, meaning, trend, will, bearing, (v) address, endeavor, aspire, propose, strive, turn, attempt, (adj) tend, 3. mark; synonyms (n) brand, evidence, score, character, heed, impression, imprint, sign, feature, (v) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (adj) notice.
- мішюк 1. sack; *synonyms* (*n*) pocket, pouch, sac, (*v*) pillage, bag, plunder, discharge, dismiss, despoil, fire, ransack, rob, rifle, can, loot; *antonym* (*v*) hire, 2. bag; *synonyms* (*n*) package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, poke, (*v*) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net, pilfer.
- млин mill; synonyms (n) grind, factory, grinder, manufactory, machine, plant, engine, gin, notch, shop, implement, (v) crush, pulverize, spar, (adj) cent.
- MJJBHH asleep; synonyms (adj) dead, deceased, dormant, inactive, numb, sleeping, sleepy, comatose, departed, gone, napping, slumbering, snoozing, lifeless, defunct; antonyms (adj) awake, up.
- **мнимий** alleged; *synonyms* (*adj*) reputed, apparent, assumed, ostensible, professed, supposed, apologetic, pretended, putative, so-called, believed, nominal, perceived, seeming, thought; *antonym* (*adj*) real.
- MOBA 1. language; synonyms (n) dialect, expression, speech, diction, idiom, lingo, tongue, conversation, jargon, terminology, vernacular, voice, word, words, address, 2. speech; synonyms (n) delivery, lecture, discourse, language, sermon, communication, discussion, elocution, converse, harangue, oration, talk, (v) say, saying, speak, 3. tongue; synonyms (n) lingua, clapper, glossa, knife, palate, parlance, spit, (v) lick, (adj) flippancy, flowing, fluency.
- **MOBJIEHHЯ** language (мова); *synonyms* (n) dialect, expression, speech, diction, idiom, lingo, tongue, conversation, jargon, terminology, vernacular, voice, word, words, address.
- **мовознавство** linguistics; *synonyms* (*n*) glossology, philology, glossary, glottology.
- мовознавчий linguistic; synonym (adj) lingual. мовчазний 1. silent; synonyms (adj) motionless, dumb, mute, tacit, hush, inarticulate, inaudible, incommunicative, mum, noiseless, placid, reserved, reticent, still, (adv) quiet; antonyms (adj) noisy, spoken, loud, talkative, explicit, open, 2. dumb; synonyms (adj)

- dense, dim, dull, silent, speechless, obtuse, slow, stupid, idiotic, taciturn, thick, voiceless, aphonous, **3**. mum; *synonyms* (*n*) mama, mamma, mammy, mater, mom, momma, mommy, mother, secrecy, mummy.
- мовчання silence (тиша); synonyms (n) quiet, calm, lull, mum, muteness, quietness, (v) still, allay, mute, pacify, gag, muffle, muzzle, (int) hush, (adj) appease; antonyms (n) noise, sound.
- MOBUKH silently; synonyms (adv) mutely, noiselessly, quietly, stilly, secretly, faintly, furtively, indistinctly, patiently, peaceably, privately, taciturnly, whistly, wordlessly, cautiously; antonym (adv) noisily.
- могила 1. tomb; synonyms (n) grave, sepulchre, crypt, sepulcher, pit, sepulture, vault, monument, entomb, (v) bury, inter, 2. grave; synonyms (adj) austere, critical, serious, severe, solemn, earnest, bad, dangerous, deep, grand, important, sad, sedate, (v) acute, engrave; antonyms (adj) mild, frivolous, funny.
- могти 1. may (травень); synonyms (v) can, could, get, might, acquire, aim, amaze, arrest, arrive, baffle, beat, become, beget, begin, bewilder, 2. able; synonyms (adj) capable, clever, competent, dexterous, accomplished, adroit, consummate, effective, expert, fit, gifled, ingenious, endowed, (n) efficient, talented; antonyms (adj) incapable, incompetent, inept, unable, untrained, weak, 3. can; synonyms (v) tin, dismiss, fire, pickle, pot, sack, (n) bathroom, behind, buttocks, container, lavatory, posterior, rump, jar, jail; antonym (v) hire.
- могутній 1. mighty; synonyms (adj) enormous, immense, huge, grand, powerful, intense, high, big, forcible, great, large, strong, mammoth, cogent, formidable, 2. potent; synonyms (adj) forceful, influential, hard, mighty, persuasive, efficacious, lusty, stiff, vigorous, energetic, firm, heady, (n) effective, effectual, efficient; antonyms (adj) weak, impotent, 3. strong; synonyms (adj) able, deep, stable, steady, durable, good, potent, rigid, robust, secure, solid, sound, fierce, athletic, (v) steadfast; antonyms (adi) bland. delicate, faint, feeble, frail, mild, pale, slight, unconvincing, cowardly, diluted, dull, exhausted, flimsy, imperceptible, 4. powerful; synonyms (adj) brawny, muscular, hardy, full, dominant, hefty, important, sturdy, valid, convincing, husky, fit, dynamic, herculean, impressive; antonym (adj) powerless.
- MOFYTHICTB 1. power; synonyms (n) force, ability, potency, authority, control, energy, agency, domination, intensity, strength, (v) influence, might, dominion, faculty, capacity; antonyms (n) powerlessness, helplessness, weakness, 2. might; synonyms (v) can, could, main, (n) power, brawn, puissance, vehemence, capability, efficacy, command, mightiness, muscle, nerve, sway, vigor.
- мода 1. fashion; synonyms (n) cut, mode, craze, fad, manner, method, way, custom, guise, (v) form, construct, contrive, cast, create, make, 2. style; synonyms (n) fashion, name, kind, pattern, sort, class, designate, nature, panache, language, approach, chic, (v) call, entitle, (adj) character.
- модель 1. pattern; *synonyms* (*n*) model, design, fashion, form, mold, shape, example, figure, norm, order, paragon, cast, arrangement, configuration, (*v*) mould, 2.

- former; synonyms (adv) before, (adj) antecedent, anterior, bygone, earlier, foregoing, previous, prior, original, deceased, past, preceding, foremost, primary, (n) predecessor; antonym (adj) future, 3. model; synonyms (n) image, dummy, prototype, frame, lesson, archetype, epitome, exemplar, manikin, mannequin, paradigm, (adj) ideal, (v) copy, pattern, imitate; antonym (adj) atypical.
- MOДЕЛЬЄР designer; synonyms (n) architect, couturier, creator, drawer, engineer, inventor, maker, decorator, (v) artist, projector; antonym (adj) off-therack.
- MOДЕЛЮВАТИ model; synonyms (n) form, fashion, example, image, dummy, figure, prototype, frame, lesson, archetype, design, (v) copy, pattern, imitate, shape; antonym (adj) atypical.
- **модифікація** modification; *synonyms* (n) alteration, change, adaptation, variation, adjustment, limitation, deviation, qualification, shift, accommodation, amendment, conversion, limiting, mutation, revision.
- модний 1. fashionable; synonyms (adj) elegant, classy, current, popular, chic, stylish, trendy, dressy, dashing, genteel, modern, modish, newfangled, posh, rakish; antonyms (adj) unfashionable, unpopular, old-fashioned, 2. fancy; synonyms (v) daydream, imagine, wish, consider, crotchet, envision, (adj) conceive, elaborate, extravagant, (n) desire, caprice, fantasy, dream, conceit, conception; antonyms (adj) plain, unadorned, (n) reality.
- **модуль** module; *synonyms* (*n*) faculty, part, paradigm, subarray, bay, classes, constituent, course, diameter, lessons, program, protoplast, curriculum, piece, section.
- можливий 1. possible; synonyms (adj) conceivable, imaginable, likely, feasible, practicable, earthly, maybe, potential, practical, probable, thinkable, workable, attainable, believable, credible; antonyms (adj) impossible, unlikely, compulsory, 2. feasible; synonyms (adj) possible, fit, achievable, available, doable, realizable, viable, executable, plausible, 3. prospective; synonyms (adj) coming, future, eventual, imminent, impending, forthcoming, latent, budding, immediate, near, approaching, awaited, considered, looked-for, planned, 4. potential; synonyms (adj) prospective, virtual, dormant, expected, (n) capability, potency, ability, capacity, possibility, prospect, faculty, potentiality, power, voltage, 5. probable; synonyms (adj) hopeful, convincing, specious, presumptive, verisimilar, apparent; antonym (adj) improbable, 6. apt; synonyms (adj) appropriate, adroit, apropos, apposite, intelligent, good, able, adequate, convenient, dexterous, efficient, ready, smart, clever, deft; antonym (adj) inappropriate, 7. eventual; synonyms (adj) final, last, terminal, ultimate, latter, indirect, secondary, vicarious, concluding, conditional, critical, crucial, dependent, endmost, inevitable.
- можливість 1. possibility; synonyms (n) chance, feasibility, likelihood, opportunity, opening, probability, expectancy, eventuality, expectation, occasion, odds, potential, prospect, ability, danger, 2. power; synonyms (n) force, potency, authority, control, energy, agency, domination, intensity, strength, effectiveness, (v) influence, might, dominion, faculty, capacity; antonyms

- (n) powerlessness, helplessness, weakness, **3**. chance; **synonyms** (n) hazard, fortune, venture, accident, break, contingency, fate, luck, (adj) accidental, (v) gamble, adventure, risk, bet, befall, happen; **antonyms** (n) predictability, (adj) deliberate, intentional, (v) design, plan, **4**. resource; **synonyms** (n) expedient, imagination, stock, device, facility, asset, contrivance, resourcefulness, shift, source, (v) recourse, resort, refuge.
- можливо 1. maybe; synonyms (adv) perhaps, possibly, peradventure, perchance, probably, debatably, questionably, conceivable, credible, feasible, imaginably, obtainable, potentially, (n) uncertainty; antonym (adv) definitely, 2. possibly; synonyms (adv) maybe, conceivably; antonyms (adv) impossibly, unimaginably, 3. perhaps; synonym (adv) mayhap, 4. probably; synonyms (adv) presumably, belike, believably, credibly, apparently, plausibly, (adj) likely, doubtless, like.
- MOЖЛИВОСТІ facilities; synonym (n) equipment.

  мозаїка mosaic; synonyms (n) tesserae, strigae, mixture, assortment, hodgepodge, mishmash, mixoploid, (adj) tessellated, heterogeneous, complex, motley, speckled, variegated, (v) plaid, tesselated.
- **мозаїчний** mosaic; *synonyms* (n) tesserae, strigae, mixture, assortment, hodgepodge, mishmash, mixoploid, (*adj*) tessellated, heterogeneous, complex, motley, speckled, variegated, (v) plaid, tesselated.
- **M030**κ brain; *synonyms* (*n*) mastermind, genius, head, mind, reason, brainpower, brains, encephalon, intelligence, mentality, nous, psyche, wit, prodigy.
- **мокрий** wet; *synonyms* (*adj*) damp, humid, drenched, moist, soaked, sodden, dank, rainy, saturated, soggy, (*v*) moisten, water, dampen, wash, (*n*) moisture; *antonyms* (*adj*) dehydrated, parched, (*v*) dry.
- **молекула** molecule; *synonyms* (*n*) atom, corpuscle, grain, iota, jot, particle, bit, mote, speck.
- молекулярний molecular; synonyms (adj) atomic, corpuscular, microscopic, least, minute, subatomic.
- молитва 1. prayer; *synonyms* (n) petition, invocation, appeal, entreaty, plea, orison, request, suit, litany, devotion, asking, supplication, blessing, demand, supplicant, 2. blessing; *synonyms* (n) benediction, approval, mercy, benefit, benison, felicity, luck, advantage, boon, godsend, grace, fluke, consecration, support, windfall; *antonyms* (n) curse, disapproval.
- **молитися** pray; *synonyms* (*v*) beg, implore, entreat, crave, appeal, beseech, invite, plead, importune, ask, invoke, petition, supplicate, bid, (*adv*) please.
- MOJIUTOBHSI chapel; *synonyms* (n) church, worship, kirk, shrine, temple, cathedral, kapelle, minster, basilica, conventicle, (v) enshrine.
- **молодий 1.** young; *synonyms* (*adj*) green, juvenile, immature, adolescent, fresh, new, raw, baby, boyish, callow, childish, early, tender, (*n*) offspring, progeny; *antonyms* (*adj*) old, mature, adult, (*n*) aged, **2**. youthful; *synonyms* (*adi*) young, vernal, beardless.
- **молодість** youth; *synonyms* (*n*) boy, juvenile, lad, young, youngster, adolescence, kid, juvenility, puberty, stripling, younker, child, puppy, infancy, (*adj*) adolescent; *antonyms* (*n*) adulthood, adult, ripeness.

- молодший 1. young; synonyms (adj) green, juvenile, immature, adolescent, fresh, new, raw, baby, boyish, callow, childish, early, tender, (n) offspring, progeny; antonyms (adj) old, mature, adult, (n) aged, 2. junior; synonyms (adj) subordinate, minor, young, associate, puisne, lesser, lower, petty, secondary, younger, (n) inferior, boy, assistant; antonyms (adj) senior, chief.
- **молодь** youth; *synonyms* (*n*) boy, juvenile, lad, young, youngster, adolescence, kid, juvenility, puberty, stripling, younker, child, puppy, infancy, (*adj*) adolescent; *antonyms* (*n*) adulthood, adult, ripeness.
- **молоко** milk; *synonyms* (*v*) exploit, squeeze, drain, tap, anodyne, balm, bleed, (*adj*) albumen, chalk, glair, gluten.
- молоти mill; synonyms (n) grind, factory, grinder, manufactory, machine, plant, engine, gin, notch, shop, implement, (v) crush, pulverize, spar, (adi) cent.
- MOJIOΤΟΒΟΕЦЬ striker; synonyms (n) hitter, beater, batsman, batter, activist, campaigner, demonstrator, marcher, picketer, pulsator, slugger, dissenter, wencher.
- **молоток** hammer; *synonyms* (n) pound, gavel, (v) strike, bang, beat, knock, tap, club, forge, hit, thrash, drive, drum, rap, batter.
- **молочарня** dairy; *synonyms* (*n*) farm, laundry, bakery, bakeshop, confectionery, delicatessen, greengrocer, grocery, supermarket, buttery, factory, pasteurizer.
- MOMEHT 1. moment; synonyms (n) importance, consequence, flash, instant, jiffy, minute, import, bit, second, time, weight, hour, matter, juncture, magnitude,
  2. point; synonyms (n) place, grade, peak, nib, edge, aim, article, degree, dot, mark, spot, phase, (v) head, direct, level.
- монарх 1. monarch; *synonyms* (*n*) king, sovereign, emperor, ruler, (*adj*) prince, **2**. king (король); *synonyms* (*n*) mogul, chief, baron, crown, magnate, tycoon, majesty, rex, monarch, power, ace.
- **монархія** monarchy; *synonyms* (n) kingdom, empire, autocracy, realm, domain, crown, department, dominion, nation, reign, land, rule, territory.
- **монастир 1**. monastery; *synonyms* (*n*) friary, (*v*) abbey, cloister, convent, **2**. abbey; *synonyms* (*n*) monastery, church, priory, clergyman.
- **MOHETA** Coin; *synonyms* (n) cash, money, specie, currency, piece, (ν) forge, invent, mint, originate, create, strike, cast, devise, fabricate, weave.
- **MOHETAPHИЙ** monetary; *synonyms* (*adj*) financial, pecuniary, commercial, economic, numismatical, sumptuary, budgetary, capital, cash, pocket.
- **монетний** monetary; *synonyms* (*adj*) financial, pecuniary, commercial, economic, numismatical, sumptuary, budgetary, capital, cash, pocket.
- MOHITOP monitor; synonyms (v) check, regulate, control, eavesdrop, observe, supervise, (n) admonisher, dame, ironclad, moderator.
- **МОНІТОРИНГ** monitoring; *synonym* (*n*) observation. **монополія** monopoly; *synonyms* (*n*) impropriation, limitation, retention, business, cartel, industry, influence, organization, protection, restriction, ring, stranglehold, throttlehold, trust, consortium.
- **MOHCTP** monster; *synonyms* (*n*) giant, beast, brute, demon, devil, fiend, freak, behemoth, colossus,

- monstrosity, ogre, prodigy, chimera, (adj) huge, stupendous.
- **MOHYMEHT** monument; *synonyms* (n) memorial, headstone, column, record, tombstone, shrine, slab, tablet, landmark, statue, (*adj*) obelisk, pillar.
- мораль 1. moral; *synonyms* (*adj*) ethical, decent, good, honest, right, chaste, proper, righteous, upright, virtuous, honorable, noble, pure, (*n*) lesson, meaning; *antonyms* (*adj*) immoral, bad, unwholesome, 2. morality; *synonyms* (*n*) ethics, goodness, honesty, virtue, decency, integrity, righteousness, chastity, rectitude, morals, probity, propriety; *antonyms* (*n*) immorality, decadence.
- моральний moral; synonyms (adj) ethical, decent, good, honest, right, chaste, proper, righteous, upright, virtuous, honorable, noble, pure, (n) lesson, meaning; antonyms (adj) immoral, bad, unwholesome.
- **морально** morally; *synonyms* (*adv*) virtuously, chastely, virtually, decently, (*adj*) practically, abandoned, conscience, depraved, depravity, describes, dissolute, graceless, hardening, immoralities, iniquity; *antonym* (*adv*) immorally.
- Mope 1. sea; synonyms (n) ocean, water, waves, (adj) marine, maritime, array, nautical, seagoing, army, 2. tide; synonyms (n) current, flow, stream, course, drift, run, time, race, rush, (v) wave, flood, surge, billow, noonday, 3. surge; synonyms (n) burst, ripple, spurt, increase, spate, upsurge, (v) rise, gush, heave, jet, swell, soar, leap, zoom, crowd.
- **Mopo3** frost; *synonyms* (*n*) cold, freeze, freezing, rime, hoar, hoarfrost, icing, (*v*) chill, ice.
- морський 1. maritime; synonyms (adj) marine, nautical, sea, (v) seafaring, 2. naval; synonym (adj) maritime, 3. marine; synonyms (adj) saltwater, aquatic, (n) navy, bluejacket, galiongee, galionji, leatherneck, 4. sea (море); synonyms (n) ocean, water, waves, (adj) array, seagoing, army.
- **МОРЯК** blue (блакитний, синій); *synonyms* (adj) azure, depressed, down, gloomy, low, cheerless, dejected, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, naughty, sad, sapphire, spicy, black.
- MOTATH wind (Bitep); synonyms (n) air, gust, (v) coil, twist, curl, meander, turn, bend, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll, weave.
- **MOTHB 1.** motive; *synonyms* (n) cause, ground, account, impulse, incentive, incitement, inducement, motif, motivation, reason, subject, design, grounds, (v) aim, consideration, **2.** tune; *synonyms* (n) melody, song, strain, air, concord, harmony, note, consonance, music, sound, (v) adjust, regulate, chant, attune, string.
- **MOTUBY BAHHЯ** motivation; *synonyms* (n) motive, impulse, cause, incentive, reason, spur, impetus, force, grounds, motif, provocation, stimulus, drive, inspiration.
- мотлох rubbish; *synonyms* (n) refuse, garbage, litter, nonsense, trash, junk, offal, debris, drivel, hogwash, trumpery, waste, dirt, falderal, (*adj*) bosh; *antonym* (n) sense.
- **MOTOK** knot; *synonyms* (n) bow, cluster, tie, loop, bunch, gang, joint, lump, tangle, band, burl, (ν) entangle, knit, bind, fasten.

- **MOTOP 1.** motor; *synonyms* (n) engine, automobile, machine, car, locomotive, conductor, (*adj*) motive, (v) drive, ride, travel, **2.** engine; *synonyms* (n) contrivance, implement, instrument, mechanism, organ, tool, utensil.
- MOTY3KA rope; *synonyms* (n) cable, lasso, lariat, noose, cord, hawser, leash, line, string, tape, lace, tether, thread, (v) tie, bind.
- **мочити** wet (мокрий); *synonyms* (*adj*) damp, humid, drenched, moist, soaked, sodden, dank, rainy, saturated, soggy, (*v*) moisten, water, dampen, wash, (*n*) moisture; *antonyms* (*adj*) dehydrated, parched, (*v*) dry.
- Mpis 1. dream; synonyms (n) daydream, aspiration, ambition, vision, desire, fantasy, figment, nightmare, reverie, sleep, coma, trance, notion, (v) imagine, muse; antonym (n) reality, 2. Vision; synonyms (n) sight, view, dream, imagination, outlook, specter, ghost, spirit, apparition, hallucination, image, phantom, prospect, illusion, (v) fancy.
- **мріяти** dream; *synonyms* (n) daydream, aspiration, ambition, vision, desire, fantasy, figment, nightmare, reverie, sleep, coma, trance, notion, (v) imagine, muse; *antonym* (n) reality.
- **ΜΡЯΚΑ** mist; *synonyms* (n) fog, cloud, haze, vapor, brume, film, smoke, steam, (ν) blur, befog, cover, obscure, drizzle, bedim, becloud.
- **MCTUTU** revenge; *synonyms* (n) reprisal, retaliation, retribution, vengeance, grudge, payback, punishment, revengement, (ν) avenge, retaliate, repay, requite, vindicate, punish.
- **MCTHTUC9** revenge; *synonyms* (n) reprisal, retaliation, retribution, vengeance, grudge, payback, punishment, revengement, (v) avenge, retaliate, repay, requite, vindicate, punish.
- мудрий wise; synonyms (adj) judicious, reasonable, sensible, intelligent, knowing, prudent, rational, sagacious, sound, discreet, shrewd, sane, discerning, thoughtful, (n) method; antonyms (adj) foolish, unwise, stupid.
- мудрість wisdom; *synonyms* (n) discretion, judiciousness, knowledge, prudence, sagacity, sapience, sense, discernment, insight, learning, depth, judgment, profundity, reasonableness, (v) lore; *antonyms* (n) foolishness, stupidity.
- MУДРОВАНИЙ tricky; synonyms (adj) crafty, cunning, artful, deceitful, sly, delicate, difficult, foxy, shifty, slippery, wily, complicated, designing, dodgy, guileful; antonyms (adj) easy, straightforward, honest.
- MYЖНІЙ brave; synonyms (adj) adventurous, bold, audacious, courageous, endure, fearless, hardy, intrepid, valiant, virile, confident, daring, dauntless, (v) defy, confront; antonyms (adj) cowardly, frightened, gutless, pathetic, (n) timid.
- мужність courage; synonyms (n) bravery, audacity, fortitude, backbone, boldness, gallantry, heroism, mettle, nerve, spirit, valor, chivalry, manhood, courageousness, determination; antonym (n) cowardice.
- **МУЖЧИНА** man (чоловік); *synonyms* (*n*) fellow, gentleman, guy, person, husband, homo, human, humanity, humankind, humans, individual, mankind, mortal, (*obj*) he, male; *antonym* (*n*) woman.

- **музей** museum; *synonyms* (*n*) gallery, depository, landmark, treasury.
- музика music; synonyms (n) harmony, melody, chorus, musical, composition, sound, euphony, medicine, refrain, din, entertainment, gayety, glee, (adj) decreasing, increasing.
- музикальний musical; *synonyms* (*adj*) melodious, harmonious, melodic, canorous, sweet, tuneful, pleasing; *antonym* (*adj*) discordant.
- **MY3UKAHT** musician; *synonyms* (n) player, instrumentalist, minstrel, singer, actor, artiste, virtuoso.
- **МУЗИКИ** music (музика); *synonyms* (n) harmony, melody, chorus, musical, composition, sound, euphony, medicine, refrain, din, entertainment, gayety, glee, (adj) decreasing, increasing.
- музичний musical; synonyms (adj) melodious, harmonious, melodic, canorous, sweet, tuneful, pleasing; antonym (adj) discordant.
- MYKA 1. agony; *synonyms* (n) anguish, torture, distress, misery, suffering, torment, grief, pain, pang, passion, sorrow, throe, ache, affliction, martyrdom, 2. torture; *synonyms* (n) agony, excruciation, distortion, (v) rack, afflict, agonize, excruciate, persecute, martyr, crucify, distort, hurt, wring, lacerate, worry.
- **МУКАННЯ** low (низький); *synonyms* (*adj*) contemptible, abject, humble, ignoble, base, blue, common, deep, dejected, depressed, down, downcast, downhearted, (*adv*) gentle, (*n*) depression; *antonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, happy, high-pitched, loud, important, piercing, (*n*) high.
- MУКАТИ low (низький); synonyms (adj) contemptible, abject, humble, ignoble, base, blue, common, deep, dejected, depressed, down, downcast, downhearted, (adv) gentle, (n) depression; antonyms (adj) cheerful, happy, high-pitched, loud, important, piercing, (n) high.
- **MYJI** mud; *synonyms* (n) dirt, filth, grime, ooze, sludge, soil, swamp, (adi) clay, (v) mire, muck.
- **MyMis** mummy; *synonyms* (*n*) mama, mamma, mammy, mom, momma, mommy, mum, mater, am, milliampere, secrecy, skeleton, (*v*) shrivel.
- мундштук tip; *synonyms* (n) top, hint, peak, point, pinnacle, apex, bribe, clue, crown, gratuity, (v) incline, tilt, dump, lean, slant.
- **муніципальний** municipal; *synonyms* (*adj*) city, civic, civil, public, urban, national, metropolitan, town, administrative, community, domestic, executive; *antonym* (*adj*) rural.
- **MYP** wall; *synonyms* (*n*) partition, bar, barrier, bulwark, rampart, cliff, earthwork, fortification, screen, rail, barricade, block, blockade, bolt, (*y*) fence.
- **MYCHTH** must; *synonyms* (*v*) have, need, mold, demand, ought, shall, should, (*n*) essential, necessity, requirement, obligation, necessary, mustiness, requisite, want; *antonym* (*n*) option.
- мускул muscle; synonyms (n) brawn, potency, sinew, might, power, strength, force, energy, flesh, beef, physique, musculus, tendon, (adi) nerve, stamina.
- **МУСКУЛИСТИЙ** muscular; *synonyms* (*adj*) athletic, brawny, strong, burly, hefty, powerful, robust, husky,

- stalwart, stout, sturdy, manly, cogent, hardy, rugged; *antonyms* (*adj*) puny, slight.
- мускульний muscular; *synonyms* (*adj*) athletic, brawny, strong, burly, hefty, powerful, robust, husky, stalwart, stout, sturdy, manly, cogent, hardy, rugged; *antonyms* (*adj*) puny, slight.
- MYCKYЛЯСТИЙ nervous; synonyms (adj) anxious, excitable, tense, cowardly, afraid, apprehensive, fearful, shy, uneasy, firm, edgy, fidgety, neurotic, (adv) excited, agitated; antonyms (adj) calm, brave, relaxed.
- Myxa fly; synonyms (v) escape, dash, drive, flee, glide, elope, aviate, dart, flutter, hop, hover, (n) flap, (adj) break, flit, burst.
- **МУЧИТИ 1**. pain (біль); *synonyms* (n) distress, ache, bother, ill, torment, agony, nuisance, harass, annoyance, (v) hurt, afflict, anguish, grieve, trouble, agonize; *antonym* (n) pleasure, **2**. torture; *synonyms* (n) pain, suffering, excruciation, grief, misery, martyrdom, distortion, (v) rack, excruciate, persecute, martyr, crucify, distort, wring, lacerate.
- MЧАТИ speed (ШВИДКІСТЬ); synonyms (n) race, rapidity, velocity, celerity, (v) hasten, hurry, quicken, run, rush, accelerate, dash, dispatch, expedite, promote, shoot; antonym (n) slowness.
- M'ЯЗ muscle; synonyms (n) brawn, potency, sinew, might, power, strength, force, energy, flesh, beef, physique, musculus, tendon, (adi) nerve, stamina.
- М'ЯЗИСТИЙ muscular; synonyms (adj) athletic, brawny, strong, burly, hefty, powerful, robust, husky, stalwart, stout, sturdy, manly, cogent, hardy, rugged; antonyms (adj) puny, slight.
- **М'ЯЗОВИЙ** muscular; *synonyms* (*adj*) athletic, brawny, strong, burly, hefty, powerful, robust, husky, stalwart, stout, sturdy, manly, cogent, hardy, rugged; *antonyms* (*adj*) puny, slight.
- м'який 1. soft; synonyms (adj) gentle, easy, light, limp, balmy, delicate, quiet, slack, loose, clement, faint, flabby, flaccid, (v) feeble, low; antonyms (adj) hard, firm, harsh, loud, hoarse, rough, solid, stiff, alcoholic, shrill, strong, 2. gentle; synonyms (adj) calm, friendly, soft, affable, kind, mild, tame, amiable, benign, bland, compassionate, docile, fine, fond, (n) benevolent; antonyms (adj) caustic, cruel, fierce, violent, abrupt, hardhearted, heavy, sarcastic, sheer, steep, 3. mild; synonyms (adj) kindly, gracious, lenient, humble, meek, sweet, indulgent, moderate, temperate, compliant, flat, merciful, benignant, humane, harmonious; antonyms (adi) intense, extreme, pungent, severe, sharp, spicy, barbed, great, hot, incisive, passionate, powerful, scathing, wintry, 4. delicate; synonyms (adj) accurate, breakable, dainty, fragile, refined, tender, beautiful, brittle, difficult, frail, nice, sensitive, slim, agreeable, infirm; antonyms (adj) inelegant, robust, sturdy, tough.
- M'SKICTЬ soft; synonyms (adj) gentle, easy, light, limp, balmy, delicate, quiet, slack, loose, clement, faint, flabby, flaccid, (ν) feeble, low; antonyms (adj) hard, firm, harsh, loud, hoarse, rough, solid, stiff, alcoholic, shrill, strong.
- M'ЯКО 1. softly; *synonyms* (*adv*) gently, mildly, quietly, soft, lightly, quiet, slowly, delicately, silently, kindly, light, tenderly, piano; *antonyms* (*adv*) hoarsely, roughly,

- loudly, clearly, **2**. mildly; **synonyms** (*adv*) blandly, moderately, compassionately, favorably, humbly, indulgently, insipidly, modestly, submissively, supplely, timidly, weakly, mercifully, pliantly; **antonyms** (*adv*) extremely, intensely, passionately.
- M'AKOTb soft; synonyms (adj) gentle, easy, light, limp, balmy, delicate, quiet, slack, loose, clement, faint, flabby, flaccid, (v) feeble, low; antonyms (adj) hard, firm, harsh, loud, hoarse, rough, solid, stiff, alcoholic, shrill, strong.
- **M'ЯСНИК** butcher; *synonyms* (n) assassin, botch, bungler, meatman, murderer, slaughterer, blunderer, botcher, bumbler, (v) assassinate, slaughter, kill, massacre, murder, slay.
- M'sco 1. meat; synonyms (n) flesh, core, essence, food, gist, heart, kernel, marrow, substance, crux, matter, beef, brawn, stuff, content, 2. flesh; synonyms (n) mortality, anatomy, chassis, figure, form, frame, humanity, mankind, meat, muscle, pulp, shape, (adj) carnality, concupiscence, lust.
- м'яч ball; synonyms (n) bulb, globe, shot, shell, bead, baseball, bullet, dance, football, lump, orb, party, pellet, projectile, sphere.

## Н

- Ha 1. on; synonyms (prep) at, about, concerning, in, by, into, upon, for, above, (adv) forth, ahead, (adj) forward, aboard, (prf) along, against; antonym (adv) off, 2. at; synonyms (prep) a, (n) astatine, (adv) on, (prf) all, completely, wholly, (adj) entertainment, levee, party, reception, conversazione, home, soiree, 3. to; synonyms (prep) before, near, toward, towards, until, unto, (adv) versus, (v) till, 4. in (y); synonyms (prep) during, between, through, inside, (adv) indoors, inward, (v) press, (n) inch, (adj) stylish, fashionable, inwards, trendy, within, modish, popular; antonyms (prep) out, outside.
- **HA**δΑΓΑΤΟ far; *synonyms* (*adv*) wide, off, widely, well, astray, (*adj*) distant, aloof, faraway, remote, much, outlying, (*v*) considerably, abundantly; *antonyms* (*adv*) close, briefly, (*adj*) near.
- **HAGEPEЖHA** bay; *synonyms* (n) alcove, bark, recess, cry, harbor, fiord, sound, cove, embayment, gulf, (adj) brown, (ν) yap, roar, bellow, howl.
- **HAGUPATU** assume; *synonyms* (v) affect, accept, adopt, appropriate, arrogate, feign, take, presume, sham, simulate, suppose, understand, usurp, feel, acquire.
- HABIP 1. gang; synonyms (n) crew, band, circle, company, crowd, association, bunch, faction, mob, pack, team, assemblage, clique, club, group, 2. selection; synonyms (n) election, choice, option, alternative, extract, quotation, assortment, pick, preference, range, collection, appointment, excerpt, volition, voting, 3. set; synonyms (v) fix, place, lay, put, locate, position, regulate, define, adjust, arrange, (n) class, bent, (adj) fixed, fast, secure; antonyms (v) soften, liquefy, melt, (n) combing, comb-out, (adj) variable, flexible, liquid, 4. intake; synonyms (n) absorption, consumption,

- ingestion, drinking, eating, uptake, expenditure, receipt, harvest, ingesta, phthisis, tap, usance, **5**. suite; *synonyms* (*n*) retinue, series, entourage, apartment, cortege, flat, train, court, battery, rooms, (*adj*) round, succession.
- **НАБЛИЖАТИ** anticipate; *synonyms* (v) antedate, expect, forecast, forestall, foretell, think, calculate, estimate, apprehend, divine, guess, predict, presume, prevent, intercept.
- наближатися 1. approach; synonyms (n) access, entry, advent, arrival, avenue, coming, entrance, means, method, adit, (v) advance, accost, address, near, approximate; antonym (v) leave, 2. Wear; synonyms (v) dress, endure, bear, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, (n) clothing, apparel, attire, clothes, garb, erosion, garment; antonym (v) refresh.
- наближення 1. approach; synonyms (n) access, entry, advent, arrival, avenue, coming, entrance, means, method, adit, (v) advance, accost, address, near, approximate; antonym (v) leave, 2. forthcoming; synonyms (adj) future, approaching, imminent, outgoing, upcoming, oncoming, pending, extroverted, gracious, (v) batching, brewing; antonym (adj) reserved.
- HASPATH 1. gather; *synonyms* (v) deduce, convene, accumulate, amass, assemble, collect, compile, congregate, flock, garner, meet, tuck, earn, rally, (n) fold; *antonyms* (v) disperse, scatter, 2. pick; *synonyms* (v) clean, gather, harvest, opt, break, (n) alternative, elite, best, choice, option, selection, (adj) cream, select, mattock. flower.
- набридати 1. bore; synonyms (v) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (n) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (adj) pother; antonyms (v) interest, excite, fascinate, 2. interfere; synonyms (v) intercede, obstruct, disturb, conflict, clash, hinder, impede, intervene, meddle, tamper, interrupt, contravene, encroach, (n) interpose, (adj) intermeddle.
- **НАБРИДНУТИ** bore; *synonyms* (v) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (n) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (adj) pother; antonyms (v) interest, excite, fascinate.
- Haбybath 1. acquire; synonyms (v) get, achieve, find, gain, take, accept, attain, buy, collect, contract, earn, obtain, purchase (κyΠyβath); synonyms (v) lose, sell, 2. purchase (κyΠyβath); synonyms (v) acquisition, bargain, leverage, acquirement, grip, hold, (v) acquire, bribe, procure; antonym (n) transaction, 3. gain; synonyms (v) benefit, derive, catch, win, advance, make, reach, accomplish, come, effect, gather, (n) profit, earnings, advantage, addition; antonym (n) loss, 4. obtain; synonyms (v) have, extract, prevail, extort, compass, fetch, carry, draw, enlist, incur, reap, secure, stand, complete, can.
- HABYTH 1. acquire; *synonyms* (v) get, achieve, find, gain, take, accept, attain, buy, collect, contract, earn, obtain, purchase, receive, assume; *antonyms* (v) lose, sell, 2. obtain; *synonyms* (v) acquire, have, accomplish, derive, effect, extract, gather, make, prevail, procure, extort, compass, fetch, carry, catch.

- наважуватися dare; *synonyms* (*v*) defy, brave, hazard, confront, resist, risk, disobey, (*n*) challenge, venture, adventure, daring, defiance.
- HABAJIA invasion; *synonyms* (*n*) attack, assault, aggression, incursion, inroad, descent, foray, influx, intrusion, encroachment, infringement, occupation, raid, breach, charge; *antonyms* (*n*) retreat, surrender.
- HABAJIOBATИ bank (банк); synonyms (n) dam, coast, slope, store, limit, stack, bluff, heap, hill, riverside, (ν) embankment, gradient, deposit, mound, rely; antonym (ν) withdraw.
- HABAHTAЖЕННЯ 1. capacity; synonyms (n) capability, aptitude, capacitance, function, intelligence, talent, might, dimension, content, endowment, faculty, gift, measure, position, (adj) ability; antonyms (n) inability, incapability, 2. filling; synonyms (n) fill, filler, weft, contents, loading, plug, pad, impletion, padding, stuffing, wadding, woof.
- HABAHTAЖУВАТИ 1. burden; synonyms (n) load, anxiety, pack, strain, bale, care, cargo, concern, core, (v) bother, weight, burthen, clog, trouble, afflict; antonyms (v) relieve, unburden, 2. pile; synonyms (n) heap, stack, mass, congeries, mound, bunch, accumulation, bundle, collection, hoard, jam, nap, (v) accumulate, amass, crowd.
- Habiratia navigation; synonyms (n) guidance, sailing, steering, seafaring, shipping, travel, flight, aviation, glide, gliding, pilotage, piloting, routing, sailplaning, soaring.
- навіть 1. even; synonyms (adv) yet, (adj) direct, equal, constant, equable, equivalent, flat, horizontal, identical, plane, regular, steady, (v) level, balance, smooth; antonyms (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, jagged, unequal, 2. yet; synonyms (adv) however, but, notwithstanding, even, nonetheless, though, besides, further, hitherto, eventually, unless, always, (conj) nevertheless, (n) already, (v) still.
- **Habimo** Why (40My); *synonyms* (*adv*) so, (*n*) wherefore, reason, grounds, conundrum, enigma, mystery, proof, riddle, (*adj*) indeed.
- навіювання suggestion; *synonyms* (*n*) hint, advice, intimation, proposal, allusion, counsel, dash, proposition, recommendation, sign, touch, trace, clue, implication, indication.
- **навколишній** surrounding; *synonyms* (*adj*) encircling, encompassing, circumambient, circumstant, inclosing, inclusive, (*prep*) round, about, covering.
- навколо 1. round; *synonyms* (*adv*) about, around, (*adj*) circular, plump, entire, chubby, complete, (*n*) circle, bout, ring, beat, circuit, (*v*) compass, turn, gird; *antonyms* (*adj*) slim, sharp, 2. about; *synonyms* (*prep*) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, (*adv*) approximately, almost, nearly, most, roughly, in, nearby, nigh, (*adj*) some, near; *antonyms* (*prep*) exactly, precisely, 3. around; *synonyms* (*adv*) round, somewhere, (*prep*) surrounding, (*n*) vicinity, (*adj*) throughout.
- навкруги 1. around; synonyms (adv) about, approximately, almost, round, roughly, nearly, some, somewhere, (prep) encompassing, encircling, circa, surrounding, (adj) near, nearby, (n) vicinity, 2. about;

- synonyms (prep) for, concerning, of, regarding, respecting, throughout, towards, (adv) around, most, in, nigh, virtually, (adj) practically; antonyms (prep) exactly, precisely.
- навмисний 1. deliberate; synonyms (adj) careful, calculated, circumspect, slow, thoughtful, conscious, (v) consider, cogitate, consult, debate, think, confer, contemplate, ponder, reflect; antonyms (adj) accidental, chance, unintentional, hasty, ingenuous, involuntary, spontaneous, 2. calculated; synonyms (v) advised, designed, (adj) deliberate, intended, intentional, premeditated, purposeful, studied, measured, planned, strategic, 3. intended; synonyms (adj) voluntary, destined, knowing, meant, prospective, willful.
- HABMUCHO deliberately; synonyms (adv) advisedly, consciously, purposely, designedly, intentionally, knowingly, leisurely, carefully, circumspectly, slowly; antonyms (adv) unintentionally, accidentally, involuntarily, arbitrarily, automatically, furtively.
- **навпроти** opposite; *synonyms* (*adj*) adverse, contradictory, diametric, different, hostile, opposing, opposed, antagonistic, (*adv*) counter, (*n*) contrary, opponent, adversary, contradiction, antonym, (*pron*) other; *antonym* (*adj*) similar.
- HABЧАЛЬНИЙ 1. educational; synonyms (adj) instructional, informative, cultural, enlightening, elevating, inspiring, uplifting, artistic, civilizing, college, enriching, heartening, helpful, inspirational, intellectual; antonym (adj) depressing, 2. training; synonyms (n) education, instruction, breeding, practice, preparation, teaching, exercise, discipline, nurture, drill, schooling, experience, workout, culture, coaching.
- навчання 1. teaching; synonyms (n) education, instruction, indoctrination, doctrine, pedagogy, precept, training, advice, edification, breeding, enlightenment, principle, 2, education (ocBita): synonyms (n) discipline, teaching, background, culture, knowledge, learning, nurture, schooling, literacy, tuition, experience, preparation, 3. learning; synonyms (n) erudition, acquisition, scholarship, wisdom, acquirement, letter, literature, lore, reading, science, eruditeness, learnedness, 4. study; synonyms (n) survey, consideration, investigation, meditation, (v) consider, examine, review, learn, research, check, analyze, contemplate, inquire, investigate, meditate, 5. school (школа); synonyms (n) academy, class, sect, college, herd, shoal, swarm, denomination, (v) educate, instruct, train, coach, cultivate, edify, teach, 6. instruction; synonyms (n) charge, command, counsel, direction, guidance, guideline, information, injunction, prescription, bidding, commission, decree, drill, lecture. order.
- навчати 1. teach; synonyms (v) inform, enlighten, coach, educate, instruct, indoctrinate, drill, learn, lecture, school, direct, discipline, form, (adi) guide, show, 2. learn; synonyms (v) discover, get, know, find, ascertain, have, hear, determine, acquire, con, perceive, study, tell, understand, gather, 3. qualify; synonyms (v) modify, prepare, moderate, capacitate, characterize, confine, define, designate, condition, enable, entitle, equip, fit, limit, modulate; antonym (v) disqualify.

- **НАВЧЕНИЙ** trained; synonyms (adj) qualified, experienced, skilled, capable, competent, expert, accustomed, educated, able, efficient, fit, fitted, professional, proficient, skillful; antonyms (adj) untrained, inexpert, untaught, untutored.
- **НАВЧИТИ** teach (навчати); *synonyms* (*v*) inform, enlighten, coach, educate, instruct, indoctrinate, drill, learn, lecture, school, direct, discipline, form, (*adj*) guide, show
- HAB'ЯЗУВАННЯ imposition; synonyms (n) deception, exaction, cheat, deceit, imposture, trick, demand, hoax, delusion, fraud, infliction, swindle, tax, wile, enforcement.
- HAB'ЯЗУВАТИ 1. impose; *synonyms* (*v*) force, dictate, charge, enforce, exact, prescribe, clamp, deceive, burden, enjoin, lay, levy, order, set, tax, 2. enforce; *synonyms* (*v*) coerce, compel, constrain, apply, drive, execute, implement, impose, dispense, effect, impress, accomplish, inflict, make, (*n*) assert.
- **нагадування** reminder; *synonyms* (*n*) memento, note, hint, memorandum, memorial, prompt, suggestion, monument, memory, memo, cue, relic, sign, souvenir, token
- нагадувати remind; *synonyms* (*v*) remember, recollect, prompt, recall, commemorate, hint, jog, think, consider, cue, (*n*) mind.
- **НАГАЛЬНИЙ** urgent; *synonyms* (*adj*) pressing, importunate, imperative, instant, immediate, quick, earnest, critical, serious, vital, hasty, insistent, compelling, (*v*) important, clamorous; *antonym* (*adj*) trivial.
- **нагляд 1.** supervision; *synonyms* (*n*) oversight, charge, control, direction, management, superintendence, guidance, custody, observation, care, administration, command, government, supervising, (*v*) inspection, **2**. surveillance; *synonyms* (*n*) supervision, vigilance, watch, scrutiny, monitoring, lookout, examination, following, eye, intelligence, look, security, spying, bug, bugging; *antonym* (*n*) neglect.
- наглядач 1. supervisor; synonyms (n) superintendent, director, overseer, boss, chief, manager, foreman, administrator, controller, examiner, executive, head, inspector, superior, keeper, 2. inspector; synonyms (n) supervisor, auditor, investigator, assessor, reviewer, surveyor, visitor, husband, (v) inquirer, inquisitor, 3. superintendent; synonyms (n) custodian, caretaker, guardian, super, steward, janitor, master, ruler, warden, (adj) curator, governor.
- **HAΓHITATU** pump; *synonyms* (n) heart, pumps, ticker, (v) interrogate, draw, examine, milk, question.
- нагода 1. opportunity; synonyms (n) chance, opening, luck, occasion, crack, event, room, time, alternative, break, option, possibility, scope, shot, fortune, 2. chance; synonyms (n) hazard, opportunity, probability, venture, accident, contingency, fate, random, (adj) accidental, (v) gamble, adventure, risk, bet, befall, happen; antonyms (n) predictability, (adj) deliberate, intentional, (v) design, plan, 3. occasion (випадок); synonyms (n) case, episode, happening, incident, juncture, motive, circumstance, (v) cause, create, beget, breed, induce, make, raise, generate, 4. opening

- (OTBip); *synonyms* (n) gap, mouth, aperture, beginning, cleft, commencement, door, entrance, hole, chasm, onset, breach, crevice, entry, (adj) preliminary; antonyms (n) end, closing, exit, finale, (adj) final.
- HafoJioc 1. accent (akileht); synonyms (n) stress, dialect, emphasis, idiom, importance, speech, accentuation, articulation, intonation, pronunciation, (v) emphasize, emphasise, punctuate, accentuate, pronounce, 2. emphasis; synonyms (n) accent, prominence, import, intensity, significance, vehemence, weight, 3. stress; synonyms (n) pressure, tension, force, pinch, effort, anxiety, brunt, exigency, focus, (v) strain, underline, trouble, highlight, try, worry.
- Haropi 1. above; synonyms (prep) on, past, surpassing, (adv) over, beyond, aloft, supra, up, more, overhead, (adj) preceding, former, upper, foregoing, previous; antonym (prep) below, 2. over; synonyms (adv) across, by, o'er, too, crosswise, anew, again, (prep) above, during, (n) overs, (adj) finished, done, extra, odd, gone, 3. upstairs; synonyms (n) administration, authority, board, eternity, executive, floor, head, heaven, paradise, (adj) upstair; antonym (adv) downstairs.
- нагорода 1. tribute; synonyms (n) commendation, praise, tax, contribution, honor, testimonial, duty, homage, eulogy, respect, compliment, appreciation, approval, (v) subsidy, allowance; *antonym* (n) criticism, 2. reward; synonyms (n) pay, return, guerdon, payment, wage, bribe, fee, premium, award, (v) recompense, compensation, meed, prize, repay, requite; antonym (v) punish, 3. award; synonyms (n) judgment, accolade, decoration, medal, reward, (v) accord, grant, bestow, confer, present, assign, give, allow, allot, offer, 4. premium; synonyms (n) bonus, agio, bounty, extra, price, agiotage, (adj) superior, antonym (adj) inferior, 5. prize; synonyms (n) plunder, treasure, booty, loot, trophy, honour, (v) appreciate, esteem, cherish, value, admire, pry, evaluate, appraise, (adj) choice, 6. price; synonyms (n) cost, worth, charge, expense, figure, damage, toll, expenditure, quotation, (v) estimate, amount, assess, estimation, (adj) merit, desert.
- **нагороджувати 1**. reward; *synonyms* (n) pay, return, guerdon, payment, wage, bribe, fee, premium, award, (v) recompense, compensation, meed, prize, repay, requite; *antonym* (v) punish, **2**. award; *synonyms* (n) judgment, accolade, decoration, medal, commendation, (v) accord, grant, bestow, confer, honor, present, assign, give, allow, allot.
- HAFOPOДИТИ reward; synonyms (n) pay, return, guerdon, payment, wage, bribe, fee, premium, award, (v) recompense, compensation, meed, prize, repay, requite; antonym (v) punish.
- нагрівання heating; synonyms (n) heat, warming, warm, thawing, burning, enchafing, estrus, fusion, hotness, oestrus, passion, (adj) calefactive, calefactory, calorific, calefacient.
- нагрівати 1. warm (теплий); synonyms (adj) hot, affectionate, tender, ardent, cordial, fervent, lively, fond, loving, earnest, caring, enthusiastic, genial, glowing, hearty; antonyms (adj) aloof, cold, unfriendly, reserved, hostile, (v) cool, chill, 2. heat; synonyms (n) glow,

- fervor, summer, warmth, ardor, caloric, estrus, fire, (v) bake, burn, anger, chafe, (adj) fever, excitement, passion.
- **HAΓPIBATUCЯ** heat; *synonyms* (*n*) glow, fervor, summer, warmth, ardor, caloric, estrus, fire, (*v*) bake, burn, anger, chafe, (*adj*) fever, excitement, passion; *antonyms* (*n*) cold, chill, (*v*) cool.
- HAFPIBHUK heater; *synonyms* (n) brasier, warmer, bullet, fastball, calefactor, cannabis, dope, fume, gage, ganja, grass, hummer, salamander, smoke, tuyere.
- HAΓΡΙΤ*I* heat; *synonyms* (*n*) glow, fervor, summer, warmth, ardor, caloric, estrus, fire, (*ν*) bake, burn, anger, chafe, (*adj*) fever, excitement, passion; *antonyms* (*n*) cold, chill, (*ν*) cool.
- **нагромаджений** cumulative; *synonyms* (*adj*) accumulative, collective, increasing, aggregate, total, amassed, growing, summative, additional, combined, additory, advancing, augmenting, chain, heaped.
- нагромадження 1. accumulation; *synonyms* (*n*) store, stock, accretion, mass, accrual, accruement, batch, hoard, pile, reserve, deposit, addition, aggregation, assemblage, (*v*) gain; *antonym* (*n*) shortage, 2. pile; *synonyms* (*n*) heap, stack, congeries, mound, bunch, accumulation, bundle, collection, jam, nap, (*v*) pack, accumulate, amass, crowd, throng.
- Haπ 1. over; synonyms (adv) beyond, across, more, by, o'er, on, too, (prep) above, during, (n) overs, (adj) finished, done, extra, odd, past, 2. above; synonyms (prep) surpassing, under, (adv) over, aloft, supra, up, overhead, (adj) preceding, former, upper, foregoing, previous; antonym (prep) below, 3. on; synonyms (prep) at, about, concerning, in, into, upon, for, regarding, (adv) forth, ahead, onward, (adj) forward, aboard, (prf) along, against; antonym (adv) off.
- надавати 1. lend; synonyms (v) loan, advance, give, grant, add, bestow, bring, contribute, impart, confer, provide; antonym (v) borrow, 2. allow; synonyms (v) acknowledge, accord, agree, permit, accede, acquiesce, accept, afford, authorize, bear, consent, enable, endure, (adj) admit, (n) let; antonyms (v) forbid, prohibit, deny, reject, 3. accord; synonyms (n) agreement, assent, consensus, harmony, consonance, concurrence, conformity, consistency, (v) concord, harmonize, suit, adjust, comply, compromise, consort; antonyms (n) disagreement, discord, strife, (v) conflict, 4. give; synonyms (v) allow, extend, commit, donate, convey, deliver, dispense, endow, present, yield, administer, apply, bequeath, cast, communicate; antonyms (v) withdraw, take, withhold, 5. afford; synonyms (v) lend, offer, furnish, supply, sustain, cost, fetch, produce, spare, open, show.
- **надалі** forth; *synonyms* (*adv*) along, away, forward, ahead, onward, off, on.
- **НАДБАВКА** premium; *synonyms* (*n*) bonus, agio, bounty, payment, extra, price, prize, reward, agiotage, (*adj*) superior; *antonym* (*adj*) inferior.
- надбання 1. acquisition; *synonyms* (*n*) purchase, accomplishment, acquirement, attainment, achievement, conquest, buy, getting, learning, prize, profit, assumption, (*v*) gain, 2. attainment; *synonyms* (*n*) accession, completion, fulfillment, success,

- performance, fruition, obtainment, realization, skill, (v) acquisition; *antonym* (n) failure.
- надзвичайний 1. extreme; synonyms (adj) deep, excessive, enormous, immoderate, intense, severe, supreme, terrible, ultimate, utmost, uttermost, drastic, extraordinary, (n) edge, end; antonyms (adj) middle, reasonable, near, (n) mild, moderate, slight, 2. extraordinary; synonyms (adj) distinguished, curious, exceptional, odd, abnormal, amazing, astonishing, bizarre, extra, phenomenal, rare, special, strange, unusual, famous; antonyms (adj) ordinary, normal, everyday, 3. exceptional; synonyms (adj) excellent, particular, prodigious, singular, uncommon, exceeding, outstanding, single, superior, unique, especial, aberrant, infrequent, great, incomparable; antonyms (adj) common, mediocre, average, usual, abysmal, inferior, poor, 4. uncommon; synonyms (adj) peculiar, scarce, unaccustomed, occasional, remarkable, queer, different, irregular, unfamiliar, unwonted, distinctive, eccentric, novel, atypical, unused; antonym (adj) typical, 5. unusual; synonyms (adj) quaint, exotic, unprecedented, anomalous, fantastic, funny, notable, unconventional, unnatural, unorthodox, fresh, new, uncanny, individual, eerie; antonyms (adj) customary, familiar, conventional,
- надзвичайно 1. highly; synonyms (adv) greatly, extremely, much, exceedingly, very, too, right, significantly, terribly, 2. extremely; synonyms (adv) awfully, enormously, excessively, extraordinarily, badly, desperately, exceptionally, hugely, infinitely, tremendously, utterly, whopping, extra, indeed, (adj) highly; antonyms (adv) mildly, fairly, quite, slightly, 3. utterly; synonyms (adv) absolutely, completely, perfectly, altogether, entirely, totally, dead, fully, wholly, all, simply, outright, sublimely; antonym (adv) partially.
- надійний 1. reliable; synonyms (adj) good, firm, honest, authentic, certain, dependable, faithful, safe, true, trusty. believable, solid, sound, (v) trustworthy, credible; antonyms (adj) unreliable, fallacious, inconsistent, 2. safe; synonyms (adj) secure, reliable, cautious, harmless, innocuous, correct, innocent, inoffensive, stable, steady, sure, unscathed, (n) closet, coffer, strongbox; antonyms (adj) dangerous, unsafe, hurt, risky, unprotected, vulnerable, harmful, insecure, reckless, 3. certain; synonyms (adj) actual, definite, absolute, assured, indisputable, categorical, decisive, fixed, inevitable, infallible, particular, perfect, positive, special, (v) bound; antonyms (adj) uncertain, doubtful, unsure, questionable, 4. responsible; *synonyms* (adj) accountable, amenable, culpable, responsive, conscientious, creditworthy, guilty, (v) answerable, liable; antonym (adj) irresponsible.
- надійність 1. security; synonyms (n) pledge, protection, safety, hostage, insurance, collateral, guard, secureness, strength, peace, assurance, bail, cover, defense, (v) bond; antonym (n) danger, 2. reliability; synonyms (n) dependability, dependableness, fidelity, loyalty, responsibility, credibility, faithfulness, reliableness, steadiness, trustworthiness, (adj) infallibility; antonyms (n) unreliability, dishonesty, fallibility, lateness.

- надія 1. hope (сподівання); *synonyms* (*v*) trust, anticipate, confide, expect, wish, await, look, (*n*) aspiration, belief, desire, expectation, faith, anticipation, confidence, expectancy; *antonyms* (*v*) despair, (*n*) reality, 2. expectation; *synonyms* (*n*) hope, prospect, outlook, possibility, forecast, probability, suspense, thought, optimism, 3. expectancy; *synonyms* (*n*) expectance, reversion.
- надіятися 1. hope (надія, сподівання); synonyms (v) trust, anticipate, confide, expect, wish, await, look, (n) aspiration, belief, desire, expectation, faith, anticipation, confidence, expectancy; antonyms (v) despair, (n) reality, 2. expect; synonyms (v) assume, believe, demand, understand, abide, calculate, hope, suppose, think, conceive, call, mean, ask, bear, carry.
- надлишок 1. excess; synonyms (adj) extra, additional, (n) surplus, dissipation, extravagance, plethora, abundance, exaggeration, glut, overabundance, overindulgence, overplus, remainder, rest, superfluity; antonyms (n) lack, shortage, restraint, moderation, dearth, shortfall, 2. redundancy; synonyms (n) excess, redundance, diffuseness, verbiage, repetition, superabundance, (v) pleonasm; antonym (n) employment, 3. surplus; synonyms (adj) superfluous, odd, redundant, spare, unnecessary, residual, plus, (n) balance, surfeit, remnant, overflow, leftover, residue, nimiety, (adv) over; antonyms (n) necessary, scarcity.
- надмірний 1. excessive; synonyms (adj) inordinate, exaggerated, intense, enormous, exorbitant, extravagant, extreme, exuberant, immoderate, profuse, superfluous, undue, unreasonable, huge, lavish; antonyms (adj) reasonable, moderate, affordable, 2. redundant; synonyms (adj) excessive, extra, needless, excess, unnecessary, pleonastic, spare, surplus, wordy, additional, repetitious, pointless, superabundant, supererogatory, supernumerary; antonym (adj) necessary, 3. unreasonable; synonyms (adj) foolish, absurd, preposterous, illogical, irrational, ridiculous, senseless, silly, unconscionable, unfair, impossible, invalid, unwarranted, outrageous, unjust; antonym (adj) good-natured.
- **надмірність** redundancy; *synonyms* (n) excess, redundance, diffuseness, verbiage, repetition, superabundance, superfluity, (ν) pleonasm; *antonym* (n) employment.
- надокучати bore; *synonyms* (v) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (n) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (adj) pother; antonyms (v) interest, excite, fascinate.
- надокучливий 1. boring; synonyms (adj) dull, tedious, tiresome, annoying, arid, bland, dreary, monotonous, prosaic, tame, uninteresting, wearisome, vapid, drab, (n) drilling; antonyms (adj) exciting, fascinating, interesting, gripping, original, thrilling, varied, 2. trying; synonyms (adj) difficult, arduous, hard, taxing, bothersome, demanding, rugged, severe, thorny, tough, painful, troublesome, irritating, exhausting, exacting; antonyms (adj) easy, rewarding.
- **НАДОЛУЖУВАТИ** recover; *synonyms* (*v*) reclaim, recuperate, regain, retrieve, convalesce, find, heal, mend,

- rally, restore, improve, obtain, recall, recoup, redeem; *antonyms* (*v*) deteriorate, lose.
- HaдTo 1. too; synonyms (adv) also, likewise, besides, excessively, over, overly, further, furthermore, moreover, extremely, equally, and, unduly, similarly, 2. most; synonyms (adv) nearly, greatly, nigh, virtually, (adj) almost, about, best, utmost, indeed, much, near, very, well, (n) majority, maximum; antonym (adv) least.
- **НАДУВАННЯ** inflation (інфляція); *synonyms* (n) expansion, dilatation, increase, rise, boom, subtilization, appreciation, accumulation, augmentation, bombast, conceit, depression, euphemism, exaggeration, (adj) pretension; antonym (n) deflation.
- **НАДУЖИВАТИ** abuse; *synonyms* (*n*) affront, misuse, harm, outrage, reproach, invective, (*v*) insult, mistreat, injure, assault, censure, damage, exploit, hurt, (*adj*) maltreat; *antonyms* (*v*) praise, respect.
- **НАДУТИЙ** blown; *synonyms* (v) distended, (*adj*) breathless, puffy, panting, swollen, winded, dissipated, flushed, gasping, high, late, mighty, misspent, pursy, spent
- **НАДХОДЖЕННЯ** earnings; synonyms (n) profit, salary, income, pay, profits, revenue, wage, compensation, gain, lucre, proceeds, receipts, remuneration, returns, takings.
- назавжди forever; synonyms (adv) ever, always, eternally, everlastingly, evermore, continually, interminably, ceaselessly, permanently, (adj) eternal, permanent, (n) eternity; antonym (adv) temporarily.
- Ha3aд 1. back; synonyms (adv) before, backward, (n) rear, (adj) assist, (v) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; antonyms (n) face, (v) front, oppose, advance, 2. backwards; synonyms (adv) back, rearward, rearwards, about, arrear, caudad, contrarily, reflexively, (adv, adj) topsy-turvy.
- **Ha3Ba 1**. title; *synonyms* (*n*) call, designation, caption, claim, designate, appellation, denomination, epithet, interest, (*v*) name, style, term, entitle, (*adj*) right, ownership, **2**. name; *synonyms* (*n*) title, address, fame, (*v*) appoint, baptize, describe, cite, enumerate, identify, list, mention, constitute, denominate, itemize, make.
- HA3BATH 1. call; *synonyms* (v) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (n) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; *antonym* (v) dismiss, 2. name; *synonyms* (n) call, title, epithet, appellation, denomination, designation, (v) describe, designate, entitle, enumerate, identify, list, mention, constitute, denominate.
- Ha3HBATH 1. call; synonyms (v) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (n) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; antonym (v) dismiss, 2. name; synonyms (n) call, title, epithet, appellation, denomination, designation, (v) describe, designate, entitle, enumerate, identify, list, mention, constitute, denominate, 3. qualify; synonyms (v) modify, prepare, moderate, capacitate, characterize, confine, define, determine, condition, enable, equip, fit, limit, modulate, narrow; antonym (v) disqualify, 4. title; synonyms (n) caption, claim, interest, championship, heading,

- pretension, rubric, deed, prize, subtitle, property, (v) style, term, (adj) right, ownership.
- назовні outside; synonyms (adj) external, out, outdoor, foreign, extraneous, outer, away, outward, remote, slight, surface, distant, (adv) outdoors, alfresco, (n) exterior; antonyms (prep) inside, in, (adj) indoor, internal, (adv) indoors.
- наївний innocent; synonyms (adj) harmless, chaste, artless, clear, ingenuous, innocuous, guileless, guiltless, ignorant, blameless, faultless, gullible, naive, pure, spotless; antonyms (adj) guilty, culpable, responsible, wary, wicked.
- HAÏBHICTb innocence; *synonyms* (*n*) cleanness, blamelessness, chastity, ignorance, artlessness, gullibility, ingenuousness, purity, innocency, simplicity, sinlessness, virtue, candor, frankness, honor; *antonyms* (*n*) guilt, sophistication.
- **HAÏ3HMK** rider; *synonyms* (n) horseman, appendix, equestrian, passenger, codicil, supplement, clause, provision, addition, condition, horse, proviso.
- HAMBIJIBIHE most; *synonyms* (*adv*) nearly, greatly, nigh, virtually, (*adj*) almost, about, best, utmost, indeed, much, near, very, well, (*n*) majority, maximum; *antonym* (*adv*) least.
- найбільший 1. most; *synonyms* (*adv*) nearly, greatly, nigh, virtually, (*adj*) almost, about, best, utmost, indeed, much, near, very, well, (*n*) majority, maximum; *antonym* (*adv*) least, 2. all; *synonyms* (*adv*) whole, purely, altogether, entirely, totally, wholly, apiece, (*adj*) universal, each, every, gross, complete, alone, (*n*) aggregate, (*det*) any; *antonyms* (*pron*) none, (*det*) some.
- HAЙБЛИЖЧИЙ 1. immediate; synonyms (adj) close, prompt, direct, sudden, near, present, quick, expeditious, fast, hasty, instant, proximate, speedy, express, adjacent; antonyms (adj) slow, gradual, consecutive, deliberate, 2. next; synonyms (adj) later, nearest, contiguous, following, subsequent, future, coming, ensuing, after, adjoining, posterior, closest, neighboring, (adv) afterward, then; antonyms (adj) distant, outgoing, (adv) previous, preceding, previously, 3. near; synonyms (prep) about, by, around, (adv) almost, towards, approximately, (adj) imminent, impending, narrow, closer, handy, (v) familiar, approximate, approach, intimate.
- HAЙBAЖЛИВІШИЙ 1. chief; synonyms (adj) head, principal, cardinal, capital, arch, central, essential, first, main, (n) administrator, boss, captain, executive, leader, paramount; antonyms (adj) minor, associate, secondary, 2. capital; synonyms (n) city, stock, assets, cash, funds, means, money, prime, resources, top, wealth, wherewithal, (adj) primary, chief, great, 3. principal; synonyms (adj) master, leading, grand, foremost, fundamental, important, big, original, basic, dominant, (n) manager, corpus, general, lead, director.
- найвищий 1. supreme; synonyms (adj) dominant, maximum, paramount, head, chief, sovereign, consummate, extreme, preeminent, principal, superlative, uppermost, main, prime, (n) utmost; antonym (adj) minor, 2. top; synonyms (n) crown, peak, acme, apex, crest, cover, height, pinnacle, summit,

- surface, (v) best, cap, exceed, outdo, surpass; *antonyms* (*adi*) worst, (n) bottom, base, nadir.
- найгірше worst; synonyms (adj) floor, lick, drub, (v) whip, defeat, trounce, best, rout, overcome, pip; antonym (adj) highest.
- найгірший worst; *synonyms* (*adj*) floor, lick, drub, (*v*) whip, defeat, trounce, best, rout, overcome, pip; *antonym* (*adj*) highest.
- HAЙКРАЩИЙ 1. best; synonyms (adj) better, superior, supreme, choice, great, leading, superlative, (v) beat, outdo, overcome, outshine, (n) top, elite, most, maximum; antonym (n) worst, 2. preferable; synonyms (adj) desirable, eligible, favored, likable, enjoyable, fit, pet, preferred, select, (n) agreeable, pleasing, acceptable, beloved, dear, lief.
- HAЙMAHHЯ hire; synonyms (n) wage, employment, fee, pay, salary, fare, (v) employ, engage, charter, enlist, rent, retain, take, commission, compensation; antonym (v) dismiss.
- **наймати 1.** employ; *synonyms* (v) apply, use, consume, engage, exercise, exploit, hire, wield, busy, exert, occupy, ply, retain, (n) employment, service; *antonyms* (v) fire, dismiss, **2.** engage; *synonyms* (v) contract, attract, book, employ, absorb, betroth, charter, enlist, draw, engross, involve, lock, mesh, rent, take; *antonym* (v) disengage, **3.** hire; *synonyms* (n) wage, fee, pay, salary, fare, payment, stipend, (v) commission, compensation, select, get, lease, let, accredit, buy, **4.** rent; *synonyms* (n) breach, cleft, fissure, crevice, break, crack, tear, hole, flaw, fracture, gap, rift, rip, slit, split.
- наймач 1. employer; synonyms (n) boss, master, businessperson, patron, capitalist, company, corporation, director, establishment, executive, firm, juice, kingpin, management, organization; antonym (n) employee, 2. tenant; synonyms (n) inhabitant, lodger, occupant, resident, holder, occupier, renter, inmate, dweller, householder, (v) inhabit, occupy; antonyms (n) landlord, proprietor.
- HAMMEHYBAHHЯ name; synonyms (n) call, title, epithet, address, appellation, (v) appoint, baptize, describe, cite, designate, entitle, enumerate, identify, list, mention
- HAЙMEHIIIИЙ 1. bare; synonyms (adj) naked, austere, bald, stark, bleak, desolate, devoid, exposed, mere, nude, plain, vacant, vacuous, (v) empty, show; antonyms (adj) covered, cultivated, ornate, concealed, (v) cover, 2. least; synonyms (n) minimum, (adj) last, littlest, minimal, smallest, lowest, minutest, negligible, bottom, first, lest, vapid, atomic, feeblest, finical; antonyms (adv) most, (adj) maximum.
- HAŬHSTU rent; synonyms (n) breach, cleft, fissure, lease, let, crevice, break, crack, tear, hole, flaw, fracture, (v) hire, charter, engage.
- найстарший eldest; *synonyms* (*adj*) elder, older, eigne, entailed, (*n*) firstborn.
- Haka3 1. order; synonyms (n) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (v) direct, commission, arrange, call; antonyms (n) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (v) disorder, request, 2. telling; synonyms (adj) significant,

- revealing, effective, effectual, emphatic, impressive, pregnant, cogent, powerful, forceful, potent, trenchant, (n) recounting, relation, notice, 3. WTit; synonyms (n) injunction, order, act, agreement, expression, indictment, law, refusal, (v) communicate, (adj) brief, common, concise, epitome, prevalent, rife, 4. injunction; synonyms (n) behest, bidding, commandment, direction, enjoining, enjoinment, instruction, prohibition, ban, advice, caution, prescription, directive, mandate, (v) enjoin, 5. command; synonyms (n) control, administration, ascendancy, authority, claim, demand, mastery, power, sway, (v) rule, bid, dominate, instruct, require, appoint, 6. mandate; synonyms (n) authorization, dominion, sanction, authorisation, colony, (v) delegate.
- HAKA3ATI order; synonyms (n) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (v) direct, commission, arrange, call; antonyms (n) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (v) disorder, request.
- HAKA3YBATH 1. command; synonyms (n) control, instruction, behest, bidding, decree, direction, administration, ascendancy, authority, (v) charge, order, rule, call, commission, direct; antonym (v) request, 2. order; synonyms (n) command, dictate, array, rank, sort, class, condition, disposition, edict, injunction, kind, form, genus, (v) arrange, ordain; antonyms (n) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (v) disorder, 3. decree; synonyms (n) act, decision, finding, judgment, verdict, bylaw, directive, law, (v) award, decide, enact, will, enjoin, appoint, doom, 4. appoint; synonyms (v) assign, nominate, accredit, delegate, designate, prescribe, set, create, choose, constitute, depute, destine, elect, fix, (n) name.
- HAKHII 1. fur; synonyms (n) coat, down, pelt, skin, fell, hair, fleece, feathers, fuzz, hide, (v) blanket, flannel, (adj) pile, wool, floss, 2. scale; synonyms (n) flake, gamut, degree, graduation, measure, yardstick, rate, chip, (v) ascend, climb, gauge, mount, weigh, rise, (adj) balance; antonym (v) descend.
- **накладати 1**. apply; *synonyms* (*v*) dedicate, devote, employ, ask, consume, exercise, resort, use, utilize, lay, appeal, address, administer, consecrate, (*n*) give, **2**. put; *synonyms* (*v*) place, fix, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, establish, (*n*) deposit.
- **НАКЛАДЕННЯ** imposition; *synonyms* (n) deception, exaction, cheat, deceit, imposture, trick, demand, hoax, delusion, fraud, infliction, swindle, tax, wile, enforcement.
- **наклеп** libel; *synonyms* (*n*) slander, aspersion, defamation, denigration, (*v*) insult, denigrate, asperse, calumniate, defame, lampoon, malign, slur, smear, backbite, blacken.
- наконечник tip; *synonyms* (*n*) top, hint, peak, point, pinnacle, apex, bribe, clue, crown, gratuity, (*v*) incline, tilt, dump, lean, slant.
- **НАКОПИЧЕННЯ** accumulation; *synonyms* (*n*) store, stock, accretion, mass, accrual, accruement, batch, hoard, pile, reserve, deposit, addition, aggregation, assemblage, (*v*) gain; *antonym* (*n*) shortage.

- HAΚΟΠИЧУВАТИ heap; synonyms (n) pile, stack, accumulation, collection, amass, group, lot, mass, mound, bulk, bunch, congeries, (ν) aggregate, bank, collect.
- HAKPUBATU 1. cover; *synonyms* (ν) coat, conceal, top, bury, cloak, (n) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield; *antonyms* (ν) reveal, expose, uncover, 2. lay; *synonyms* (ν) place, put, fix, set, deposit, install, lie, rest, invest, bear, allay, arrange, (*adi*) secular, (n) ballad, pitch.
- HAKPUTU cover; *synonyms* (v) coat, conceal, top, bury, cloak, (n) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield; *antonyms* (v) reveal, expose, uncover.
- **налагоджувати** organize; *synonyms* (*v*) establish, coordinate, constitute, devise, direct, fix, form, institute, regulate, compose, conduct, engineer, found, make, (*n*) arrange; *antonym* (*v*) disorganize.
- належати belong; *synonyms* (v) appertain, pertain, go, lie, consist, dwell, rank, become, stand, vest, retain, accord, agree, associate, (adi) long.
- HAJIEЖHE due; *synonyms* (*adj*) appropriate, equitable, just, lawful, owed, payable, unpaid, unsettled, (*adv*) right, (*v*) owing, (*n*) debt, duty, privilege, tax, desert; *antonyms* (*adj*) paid, undue.
- належний 1. due; synonyms (adj) appropriate, equitable, just, lawful, owed, payable, unpaid, unsettled, (adv) right, (v) owing, (n) debt, duty, privilege, tax, desert; antonyms (adj) paid, undue, 2. appropriate (відповідний); synonyms (adj) pertinent, proper, true, agreeable, apposite, apt, congruous, correct, particular, peculiar, special, (v) annex, allocate, adopt, seize; antonyms (adi) inappropriate, unsuitable, unrelated, untimely, wrong, (v) surrender, 3. adequate; synonyms (adj) sufficient, acceptable, enough, condign, effectual, passable, satisfactory, competent, decent, equal, fair, fit, full, good, qualified; antonyms (adj) inadequate, insufficient, unsatisfactory, 4. proper; synonyms (adj) due, becoming, befitting, decorous, fitting, legitimate, modest, suitable, neat, exact, formal, honest, individual, meet, moral; antonyms (adj) improper, unseemly, rude.
- HAJIEXHO 1. duly; synonyms (adv) justly, correctly, punctually, rightfully, accordingly, fairly, equitably, lawfully, legally, orderly, befittingly, decorously, methodically, strictly, technically; antonym (adv) unduly, 2. properly; synonyms (adv) duly, exactly, neatly, appropriately, decently, aright, decent, fitly, fittingly, precisely, right, well, aptly, becomingly, respectably.
- **наліво** left; *synonyms* (*adj*) gone, absent, odd, port, remaining, larboard, sinister, unexpended, abandoned, remainder, corrupt, deserted, disastrous, dishonest, evil; *antonym* (*n*) right.
- HAJIT 1. odour; synonyms (n) fragrance, flavour, aroma, smell, odor, scent, flavor, feel, feeling, look, olfaction, smelling, spirit, tone, 2. raid; synonyms (n) attack, inroad, incursion, invasion, onset, descent, (v) foray, bust, maraud, assault, pillage, sortie, loot, assail, invade; antonym (n) retreat.

- **HAJIHYBATU** number; *synonyms* (n) count, amount, score, act, issue, volume, character, (v) calculate, aggregate, enumerate, figure, total, come, add, account.
- **НАЛЯКАНИЙ** fearful; *synonyms* (*adj*) afraid, cowardly, dreadful, anxious, apprehensive, awful, craven, terrible, timid, dire, eerie, formidable, frightful, appalling, awesome; *antonyms* (*adj*) brave, calm, rational, bold, confident, unimpressed.
- **HAMAFATHCH 1.** try; *synonyms* (ν) attempt, test, struggle, prove, strive, assay, examine, experiment, judge, sample, (n) endeavor, essay, chance, effort, shot, **2.** attempt; *synonyms* (n) try, offer, trial, attack, assault, adventure, bid, exertion, go, stab, (ν) aim, undertake, seek, tempt, venture, **3.** essay; *synonyms* (n) dissertation, article, disquisition, composition, tentative, paper, taste, discourse, review, critique, study, thesis, tract, treatise, writing, **4.** seek; *synonyms* (ν) search, hunt, look, inquire, aspire, beg, explore, pursue, quest, investigate, research, follow, demand, ransack, (n) ask.
- **НАМАЛЬОВАНИЙ** painted; *synonyms* (v) depaint, (adj) dyed, motley, stained, tinted, assorted, calico, cosmetic, graphic, miscellaneous, mixed, multicolor, multicolored, multicolour, multicoloured.
- HAMAJIOBATII draw; synonyms (v) attract, drag, delineate, pull, depict, derive, describe, design, tie, bring, charm, haul, (n) allure, attraction, draft; antonyms (v) push, repel.
- **Hamet** tent; *synonyms* (n) awning, camp, canopy, barracks, buckling, cover, dossil, shelter, tilt, design, gazebo, (ν) bivouac, dwell, encamp, hinder.
- **Hamip 1**. intent; synonyms (adj) attentive, absorbed, engrossed, earnest, bent, (n) aim, idea, design, intention, goal, import, meaning, purpose, spirit, drift, 2. intention; synonyms (n) end, intent, cause, animus, mind, motive, object, objective, plan, point, target, destination, conception, motivation, (v) aspiration, 3. purpose; synonyms (n) effect, purport, resolve, determination, function, decision, ambition, reason, use, occasion, (v) project, intend, propose, decide, mean, 4. thought; synonyms (v) observation, (n) notion, opinion, consideration, impression, belief, feeling, reflection, sentiment, concept, judgment, apprehension, attention, care, cogitation; antonym (n) fact, 5. view; synonyms (n) look, sight, scene, outlook, prospect, thought, aspect, position, show, spectacle, (v) regard, observe, see, consider, eve. **6**, aim: synonyms (n) trend, will, bearing. direction. (v) direct, address, endeavor, aspire, strive. turn, attempt, drive, lav. level, (adi) tend, 7, design: synonyms (n) scheme, drawing, arrangement, device. contrivance, copy, blueprint, (v) conceive, contrive, sketch, construct, arrange, contemplate, invent, model; antonym (n) chance, 8, project; synonyms (n) enterprise, venture, (v) hurl, jut, overhang, protrude, shoot, bulge, cast, devise, extend, forecast, throw, hatch, draft, 9. notion; synonyms (n) caprice, fancy, image, imagination, guess, hunch, conjecture, inkling, perception, suspicion, whim, impulse, fantasy, hint, sense.
- **HAMOTYBATH** wind (Birep); *synonyms* (n) air, gust, (v) coil, twist, curl, meander, turn, bend, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll, weave.

- наново newly; synonyms (adv) lately, new, recently, freshly, late, anew, fresh, again, latterly, (adj) afresh.
- HAOЧНИЙ 1. visual; synonyms (adj) visible, graphic, ocular, optic, optical, seeable, artistic, decorative, diagrammatic, drawn, (n) visuals, image, picture, design, diagram, 2. descriptive; synonyms (adj) expressive, narrative, illustrative, detailed, optic, illuminating, suggestive, vivid, figurative, delineating, delineatory, diagraphical, factual, informative, symbolic; antonyms (adi) prescriptive, undescriptive.
- напад 1. attack; synonyms (n) incursion, thrust, aggression, fit, onset, onslaught, seizure, (v) assault, assail, attempt, aggress, charge, invade, raid, accuse; antonyms (n) defense, (v) defend, protect, retreat, 2. assault; synonyms (n) attack, rush, violence, rape, battery, offensive, violation, storming, blitz, descent, (v) storm, violate, ambush, batter, beat, 3. aggression; synonyms (n) hostility, aggressiveness, antagonism, invasion, offense; antonym (n) friendliness, 4. onset; synonyms (n) beginning, inroad, birth, commencement, dawn, onrush, outbreak, foray, advent, opening, start, fire, oncoming.
- нападати 1. attack; synonyms (n) incursion, thrust, aggression, fit, onset, onslaught, seizure, (v) assault, assail, attempt, aggress, charge, invade, raid, accuse; antonyms (n) defense, (v) defend, protect, retreat, 2. assault; synonyms (n) attack, rush, violence, rape, battery, offensive, violation, storming, blitz, descent, (v) storm, violate, ambush, batter, beat, 3. strike; synonyms (n) knock, clap, (v) bang, hit, impress, slap, move, affect, box, buffet, bump, clout, coin, collide, mint.
- Haπactu attack; synonyms (n) incursion, thrust, aggression, fit, onset, onslaught, seizure, (ν) assault, assail, attempt, aggress, charge, invade, raid, accuse; antonyms (n) defense, (ν) defend, protect, retreat.
- Hanebho 1. certainly; synonyms (adv) assuredly, surely, necessarily, definitely, really, sure, truly, inevitably, absolutely, clearly, exactly, indeed, indubitably, positively, (int) yes; antonyms (adv) doubtfully, questionably, 2. definitely; synonyms (adv) certainly, decidedly, specifically, undoubtedly, unquestionably, completely, determinately, distinctly, emphatically, explicitly, finally, firmly, particularly, plainly, precisely; antonyms (adv) perhaps, maybe, possibly, vaguely.
- наперед 1. forward; synonyms (adv) onward, fore, ahead, along, (adj) bold, audacious, advanced, early, brazen, (n) further, (v) advance, expedite, promote, cultivate, (phr) dispatch; antonyms (adv) backward, (adj) shy, posterior, 2. beforehand; synonyms (adv) before, previously, aforehand, first, formerly, forward, (adj) already, afore.
- HAIIUJOK file; synonyms (n) archive, document, list, procession, rank, record, roll, series, string, (v) order, rasp, register, scrape, abrade, arrange.
- **HATIMC** writing; *synonyms* (n) script, composition, lettering, print, document, autograph, paper, authorship, book, inscription, record, journal, text, style, words.
- **написаний** written; *synonyms* (*adj*) scripted, registered, clerical, conscript, enrolled, hard-and-fast, literal, (*n*) examination; *antonym* (*adj*) spoken.

- **HATIUCATU** write; *synonyms* (*v*) compose, indite, pen, correspond, compile, draw, publish, record, spell, outline, type, construct, create, frame, (*n*) copy.
- напій drink; *synonyms* (n) beverage, alcohol, brew, potion, swallow, crapulence, intoxicant, nip, (v) draught, booze, carouse, bib, absorb, down, gulp.
- **HAHOBHEHHH** filling; *synonyms* (*n*) fill, filler, weft, contents, loading, plug, pad, impletion, padding, stuffing, wadding, woof.
- наповнювати fill; *synonyms* (*v*) block, clog, charge, line, stuff, accomplish, execute, complete, brim, close, cram, flood, fulfill, (*n*) crowd, filling; *antonyms* (*v*) empty, free.
- наполегливий 1. persistent; synonyms (adj) durable, constant, continual, insistent, lasting, obstinate, permanent, continuous, chronic, consistent, dogged, firm, incessant, perpetual, relentless; antonyms (adj) contained, occasional, 2. urgent; synonyms (adj) pressing, importunate, imperative, instant, immediate, quick, earnest, critical, serious, vital, hasty, compelling, eager, (v) important, clamorous; antonym (adj) trivial, 3. aggressive; synonyms (adj) belligerent, active, energetic, enterprising, hostile, invasive, offensive, pushy, warlike, strong, strenuous, assertive, dynamic, militant, pugnacious; antonyms (adj) peaceful, friendly, peaceable, passive, peace-loving, suspicious.
- наполегливість 1. insistence; synonyms (n) demand, stubbornness, insistency, insisting, instancy, persistence, press, pressure, steadfastness, urgency, determination, imperativeness; antonym (n) vacillation, 2. urgency; synonyms (n) haste, necessity, hurry, insistence, stress, exigency, compulsion, importance, speed, emergency, need, rush, importunity, essentiality, gravity, 3. patience; synonyms (n) endurance, forbearance, fortitude, longanimity, equanimity, resignation, tolerance, restraint, composure, solitaire, sufferance, indulgence, (v) moderation, calmness; antonym (n) impatience.
- наполовину half; *synonyms* (n) mediety, halve, piece, bisection, hemisphere, (adv) halfendeal, imperfectly, (adj) moiety, part, short, behalf, bisected, divided, evensteven, halved; antonyms (n) whole, all.
- наполягати 1. press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain, 2. insist; *synonyms* (v) affirm, assert, contend, claim, asseverate, declare, maintain, importune, press, argue, dwell, hold, persist.
- **НАПОРИСТИЙ** pushing; *synonyms* (v) meddlesome, (*adj*) aggressive, enterprising, pushful, pushy, ambitious, forward, (n) push, promotion.
- HAПРАВЛЯТИ direct; synonyms (adj) straight, blunt, immediate, (v) aim, channel, conduct, address, charge, control, dictate, head, administer, guide, lead, (n) command; antonyms (adj) indirect, roundabout, circuitous, oblique, second-hand, sideways, unplanned, (v) request.
- направо right; *synonyms* (*adj*) correct, appropriate, due, just, proper, decent, good, even, perfect, accurate, exact, fair, faithful, fit, (*n*) privilege; *antonyms* (*adj*)

- inappropriate, unjustified, immoral, incorrect, (n) left, (v) wrong.
- HAΠΡΥΓΑ 1. voltage; *synonyms* (*n*) potential, emf, energy, power, current, electricity, potency, potentiality, 2. strain; *synonyms* (*n*) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (*v*) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; *antonym* (*v*) relax.
- НАПРУЖЕНИЙ 1. tight; synonyms (adj) close, compact, firm, mean, parsimonious, taut, secure, snug, tense, drunk, miserly, (v) narrow, fast, stingy, near; antonyms (adj) loose, baggy, generous, slack, wide, (adv) loosely, 2. intense; synonyms (adj) bright, acute, ardent, brilliant, deep, fervent, fierce, burning, energetic, extreme, fiery, furious, heated, rich, (v) vivid; antonyms (adj) mild, calm, dull, weak, imperceptible, slight, 3. tense; synonyms (adj) strained, edgy, nervous, stiff, uptight, jumpy, wired, stretched, jittery, tight, dramatic, (v) overwrought, strain, extend, tighten; antonyms (adj) relaxed, comfortable, tranquil, (v) relax, 4. stiff; synonyms (adj) rigid, hard, difficult, formal, inflexible, numb, rigorous, severe, solid, sturdy, arduous, austere, (n) stark, cadaver, corpse; antonyms (adj) flexible, floppy, soft, supple, free, pliable.
- напруженість 1. tension; synonyms (n) tenseness, pressure, strain, nervousness, stress, tautness, tensity, tone, nerves, suspense, effort, anxiety, balance, disagreement, elasticity; antonyms (n) calmness, looseness, 2. intensity; synonyms (n) force, forcefulness, depth, volume, fierceness, emphasis, energy, ferocity, forte, fury, glow, might, passion, power, (adj) strength; antonyms (n) dullness, indifference, weakness.
- Haпруження 1. stress; synonyms (n) accent, emphasis, pressure, tension, force, importance, pinch, effort, (v) strain, emphasize, accentuate, emphasise, punctuate, underline, trouble, 2. strain; synonyms (n) stress, breed, stretch, exertion, race, reach, (v) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; antonym (v) relax, 3. tension; synonyms (n) tenseness, nervousness, tautness, tensity, tone, nerves, suspense, anxiety, balance, disagreement, elasticity, electricity, hostility, spring, stretching; antonyms (n) calmness, looseness, 4. effort; synonyms (n) attempt, application, drive, struggle, trial, try, diligence, bid, push, campaign, cause, crusade, deed, essay, exploit, 5. rush; synonyms (n) hurry, charge, flood, flow, attack, (v) dash, gush, run, speed, dart, hasten, stream, quicken, (adi) burst, spurt.
- HAIIPY'KYBATU strain; synonyms (n) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (v) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; antonym (v) relax.
- напружуватися strain; synonyms (n) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (v) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; antonym (v) relax.
- напрям 1. course; *synonyms* (n) stream, flow, bearing, career, current, path, road, route, track, channel, circuit, class, method, (v) run, chase, 2. direction; *synonyms* (n) administration, conduct, command, course, guidance, address, charge, control, instruction, rule, aspect, aim, counsel, lead, (v) management, 3. trend; *synonyms* (n)

- fashion, tendency, fad, inclination, direction, disposition, drift, movement, vogue, (v) style, tend, incline, sheer, turn, verge, **4**. line; synonyms (n) cord, file, house, breed, family, lineage, field, ancestry, border, boundary, cable, crease, row, stock, (v) order, 5. school (школа); synonyms (n) academy, sect, college, herd, shoal, swarm, denomination, (v) educate, instruct, train, coach, cultivate, discipline, edify, teach, **6**. lay; synonyms (v) place, put, fix, set, deposit, install, lie, rest, invest, bear, allay, arrange, (adj) secular, (n) ballad, pitch.
- HAIIPSIMOK direction; synonyms (n) administration, conduct, bearing, command, course, guidance, address, charge, control, instruction, rule, aspect, aim, counsel, (v) management.
- Hapaдa 1. consultation; synonyms (n) advice, conference, interview, negotiation, counsel, discussion, talk, audience, advisement, council, deliberation, meeting, reference, appointment, 2. counsel; synonyms (n) caution, advocate, admonition, attorney, consultation, counselor, exhortation, guidance, recommendation, (v) advise, consult, admonish, confer, exhort, urge, 3. council; synonyms (n) assembly, board, congress, convention, convocation, diet, legislature, cabinet, conclave.
- HAPAXOBYBATH reckon; synonyms (v) deem, count, enumerate, estimate, judge, hold, calculate, compute, guess, number, consider, gauge, rate, tally, measure.
- **наречена** bride; *synonyms* (n) wife, mate, woman, helpmate.
- HAPHC 1. essay; synonyms (n) dissertation, article, disquisition, composition, effort, tentative, paper, (v) endeavor, attempt, try, assay, offer, prove, seek, strive,
  2. outline; synonyms (n) sketch, design, edge, abstract, contour, digest, figure, frame, synopsis, (v) draft, line, form, describe, draw, border.
- **HAPI3KA** nick; *synonyms* (*n*) notch, mark, cut, chip, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (*v*) dent, steal, hack, indent.
- HAPI3HO apart; synonyms (adv) aside, asunder, away, independently, individually, (adj) aloof, alone, distant, separate, detached, isolated, only, individual, loose, (v) discrete
- HAPIKATU complain; synonyms (v) beef, bemoan, bewail, protest, squawk, whine, grudge, accuse, carp, croak, gripe, grouse, grumble, mutter, object; antonym (v) compliment.
- HAPKOTUK drug; synonyms (n) cure, medicine, anesthetic, medication, prescription, remedy, sedative, stimulant, (v) dose, medicate, potion, (adj) chaff.
- народ 1. nation (нація); synonyms (n) state, country, kingdom, commonwealth, community, land, people, nationality, public, tribe, clan, folk, republic, race, territory, 2. people; synonyms (n) nation, family, multitude, populace, mob, flock, citizenry, crowd, inhabitants, kin, (v) inhabit, occupy, reside, dwell, live, 3. folk; synonyms (n) kindred, kinsfolk, man, persons, house, 4. public; synonyms (adj) common, national, overt, civic, general, communal, mutual, popular, ordinary, civil, joint, (n) audience, (v) open, plebeian, government; antonyms (adj) private, confidential,

- personal, **5**. nationality; *synonyms* (*n*) nationalism, patriotism, civism, nationalness, birth, origin, residency, rights.
- **народження** birth; synonyms (n) beginning, ancestry, descent, extraction, genesis, parturition, blood, labor, lineage, nascency, nativity, onset, (ν) delivery, bear, deliver; antonym (n) death.
- народжувати bear (ведмідь); *synonyms* (v) carry, accept, abide, acquit, stand, take, afford, allow, apply, assume, behave, brook, comport, conduct, convey.
- HAPOДИТИСЯ born; synonyms (v) deliver, (adj) native, natural, elder, uneducated, untrained, untutored, built-in, cognate, deep-seated, essential, instinctive, intrinsic.
- народний 1. national; synonyms (adj) internal, domestic, home, civil, interior, ethnic, federal, native, public, civic, racial, (n) citizen, local, subject, inhabitant; antonyms (adj) international, foreign, private, (n) foreigner, 2. popular; synonyms (adj) common, general, current, fashionable, democratic, customary, known, plain, pop, celebrated, notorious, prominent, famous, familiar, (v) favorite; antonyms (adj) unpopular, aristocratic, disliked.
- **HAPOДHICTЬ** nation (нація); *synonyms* (*n*) state, country, kingdom, commonwealth, community, land, people, nationality, public, tribe, clan, folk, republic, race, territory.
- HAPOДОВЛАДДЯ democracy; synonyms (n) commonwealth, commonalty, nation, capitalism, country, democraty, freedom, oligarchy, republic, state, egalitarianism, emancipation, equalitarianism, equality, justice; antonyms (n) despotism, dictatorship, totalitarianism, autocracy, tyranny.
- **HAPYΓA** outrage; *synonyms* (n) affront, atrocity, indignity, anger, enormity, injury, contumely, force, (v) insult, dishonor, offend, violate, desecrate, horrify, (adj) abuse.
- **наряджати** doll; *synonyms* (*n*) puppet, baby, chick, figurine, dummy, girl, marionette, toy, bird, dame.
- Hac us; synonyms (n) aurochs, demigod, superman.
- населення 1. population; synonyms (n) inhabitants, people, nation, community, group, populace, public, society, folk, citizens, stock, universe, 2. people; synonyms (n) family, multitude, clan, mob, flock, citizenry, crowd, kin, man, mass, (v) inhabit, occupy, reside, dwell, live.
- **HachJy** Scarcely; *synonyms* (*adv*) barely, narrowly, hardly, just, scarce, rarely, seldom, only, merely, almost, scantily, scantly, exactly, precisely.
- **насильний** violent; *synonyms* (*adj*) fierce, rough, tempestuous, intense, raging, severe, turbulent, vehement, sharp, passionate, powerful, savage, stormy, (*n*) furious, boisterous; *antonyms* (*adj*) gentle, peaceful, calm, nonviolent.
- **насильство** 1. violence; *synonyms* (*n*) rage, fierceness, force, fury, ferocity, intensity, strength, vehemence, impetuosity, might, outrage, power, brutality, storm, heat; *antonyms* (*n*) gentleness, peacefulness, 2. outrage; *synonyms* (*n*) affront, atrocity, indignity, anger, enormity, injury, contumely, crime, (*v*) insult, dishonor, offend, violate, desecrate, horrify, (*adj*) abuse.

- HACИП 1. bank (банк); synonyms (n) dam, coast, slope, store, limit, stack, bluff, heap, hill, riverside, (v) embankment, gradient, deposit, mound, rely; antonym (v) withdraw, 2. banking; synonyms (n) finance, (adj) financial.
- **Hacihhh** seed; *synonyms* (*n*) germ, issue, posterity, root, offspring, progeny, origin, nucleus, brood, embryo, source, beginning, (*v*) inseminate, plant, sow.
- Hackpi3b through; synonyms (prep) for, per, along, because, throughout, (adv) by, thorough, via, (adj) finished, done, direct, straight, completed, complete, (prf) past.
- **наслідки** aftermath; *synonyms* (n) consequence, backwash, effect, result, event, outcome, rowen, sequel, upshot, wake.
- наслідок 1. outcome; synonyms (n) aftermath, consequence, effect, issue, product, fruit, development, end, event, result, decision, conclusion, corollary, outgrowth, purpose, 2. consequence; synonyms (n) import, importance, outcome, account, concern, moment, weight, backwash, impact, inference, influence, matter, repercussion, sequel, significance; antonyms (n) cause, inconsequence, insignificance, 3. result; synonyms (n) answer, produce, resolution, upshot, deduction, finale, harvest, (v) ensue, follow, eventuate, arise, develop, lead, originate, occur, 4. effect; synonyms (n) impression, sense, (v) accomplish, achieve, create, complete, do, bring, carry, execute, induce, perform, use, win, implement; antonym (n) reason, 5. consequent; synonyms (adj) ensuing, following, resultant, resulting, sequent, attendant, consequential, next, succeeding, successive, (v) subsequent, 6. sequence; synonyms (n) order, series, succession, course, arrangement, chain, episode, line, procession, progression, concatenation, pattern, continuity, cycle, gradation.
- HACЛІДУВАННЯ imitation; synonyms (n) counterfeit, dummy, sham, copy, forgery, mockery, duplicate, mock, (adj) fake, bogus, false, artificial, ersatz, phony, (v) parody; antonyms (n) original, (adj) genuine, real
- HACJILΔYBATU echo; synonyms (n) answer, repercussion, reaction, reflection, replication, (ν) repeat, reproduce, resound, reverberate, rebound, ape, copy, imitate, reflect, reiterate.
- насолода 1. delight; synonyms (n) joy, amusement, pleasure, rejoicing, bliss, delectation, gladness, (v) charm, amuse, please, ravish, captivate, cheer, enrapture, gratify; antonyms (n) sorrow, misery, (v) depress, displease, 2. pleasure; synonyms (n) delight, contentment, enjoyment, fun, gratification, content, comfort, happiness, mirth, inclination, entertainment, fruition, pleasance, satisfaction, desire; antonyms (n) anger, irritation, ache, boredom, nuisance, 3. luxury; synonyms (adj) delicacy, luxurious, deluxe, indulgence, sumptuous, dainty, (n) extravagance, lavishness, luxuriousness, elegance, luxe, opulence, wealth, ease, excess; antonyms (n) essential, paucity.
- **насолоджуватися** enjoy, *synonyms* (*v*) appreciate, bask, have, hold, possess, relish, delight, experience,

- like, love, own, rejoice, revel, devour, take; *antonym* (v) dislike
- **Hacoc** pump; *synonyms* (*n*) heart, pumps, ticker, (*v*) interrogate, draw, examine, milk, question.
- насправді 1. actually; synonyms (adv) really, truly, quite, absolutely, presently, correctly, literally, authentically, right, physically, bodily, easily, effectually, indisputably, truthfully, 2. indeed; synonyms (adv) actually, certainly, exactly, much, surely, greatly, clearly, definitely, positively, precisely, so, very, (int) forsooth, (adj) verily, well; antonym (adv) possibly, 3. really; synonyms (adv) honestly, genuinely, real, simply, practically, essentially, extremely, highly, just, completely, legitimately, substantially, (adj) indeed, sincerely, earnestly.
- HACTABATИ 1. come (приходити); synonyms (v) approach, become, aggregate, appear, arise, arrive, fall, befall, amount, descend, get, go, hail, number, originate; antonym (v) leave, 2. arrive (прибувати); synonyms (v) come, mature, attain, land, reach, succeed, show, derive, emerge, enter, happen, issue, prosper, disembark; antonym (v) depart.
- HACTAHHЯ approach; synonyms (n) access, entry, advent, arrival, avenue, coming, entrance, means, method, adit, (ν) advance, accost, address, near, approximate; antonym (ν) leave.
- **HACTIЙ** tea (чай); *synonyms* (*n*) reception, meal, party, teatime, (*v*) chocolate, cocoa, coffee.
- **настійний** instant; *synonyms* (*adj*) immediate, present, exigent, prompt, clamant, crying, (*n*) moment, flash, jiffy, minute, point, second, tick, (*v*) pressing, urgent; *antonyms* (*adj*) gradual, long-term.
- насторожений alert; synonyms (adj) active, agile, quick, aware, intelligent, lively, vigilant, clever, alive, animated, attentive, bright, (v) awake, (n) alarm, alarum; antonyms (adj) drowsy, inattentive, absentminded, dazed, sleepy, tired, asleep, slow, unalert, unconscious.
- HACTOЮВАТИ insist; synonyms (v) affirm, assert, contend, claim, asseverate, declare, maintain, urge, importune, press, argue, force, dwell, hold, persist.
- настрій 1. mood; synonyms (n) humor, atmosphere, climate, disposition, air, attitude, feeling, mode, temper, character, condition, humour, modality, state, sulk, 2. humour: synonyms (n) mood, wit, witticism. biliousness, brain, brainpower, card, wittiness, irritability, irritation, mentality, peevishness, pettishness, pique, snappishness, 3. temper; synonyms (n) nature, anger, spirit, rage, (v) moderate, soften, harden, mitigate, modify, season, qualify, anneal, restrain, restrict, (adj) mollify; antonyms (v) intensify, upset, 4. vein; synonyms (n) streak, vena, nervure, strain, mine, stripe, tone, cast, style, fund, funicle, stock, (adj) strip, 5. spirit; synonyms (n) apparition, courage, ghost, life, bravery, energy, enthusiasm, essence, heart, mind, phantom, soul, fortitude, dash, (adj) animation; antonyms (n) lethargy, body, 6. sentiment; synonyms (n) idea, emotion, notion, judgement, judgment, opinion. persuasion, sense, impression, affection, belief, position, apprehension, conception, image.
- **настроювати** 1. tone; *synonyms* (n) character, note, accent, air, shade, sound, spirit, timbre, tinge, tint,

- manner, disposition, feel, feeling, (v) color, 2. tune; synonyms (n) melody, song, strain, concord, harmony, consonance, music, tone, line, (v) adjust, regulate, chant, attune, string, service, 3. string; synonyms (n) chain, file, row, strand, twine, range, cord, filament, rank, series, thread, tie, sequence, fiber, (v) run.
- Hactyn 1. attack; synonyms (n) incursion, thrust, aggression, fit, onset, onslaught, seizure, (v) assault, assail, attempt, aggress, charge, invade, raid, accuse; antonyms (n) defense, (v) defend, protect, retreat, 2. offensive; synonyms (adj) foul, disgusting, distasteful, abusive, aggressive, loathsome, nauseous, coarse, abominable, disagreeable, impertinent, (n) attack, (v) odious, nasty, hateful; antonyms (adj) complimentary, inoffensive, pleasant, defensive, polite, tasteful, 3. offence; synonyms (n) guilt, infraction, infringement, misdemeanor, misdemeanour, offense, offensive, umbrage, violation, discourtesy.
- наступальний offensive; synonyms (adj) foul, disgusting, distasteful, abusive, aggressive, loathsome, nauseous, coarse, abominable, disagreeable, (n) assault, attack, (v) odious, nasty, hateful; antonyms (adj) complimentary, inoffensive, pleasant, defensive, polite, tasteful
- наступний 1. next; synonyms (adj) later, nearest, adjacent, contiguous, following, subsequent, future, coming, ensuing, after, close, near, adjoining, (adv) afterward, then; *antonyms* (adj) distant, outgoing, (adv) previous, preceding, previously, 2. subsequent; synonyms (adj) next, consequent, second, latter, sequential, successive, postnate, (n) posterior, 3. forthcoming; synonyms (adj) approaching, imminent, upcoming, oncoming, pending, extroverted, gracious, (v) batching, brewing; antonym (adj) reserved, 4. successive; synonyms (adj) consecutive, serial, succeeding, sequent, continuous, running, straight, 5. following; synonyms (adi) deducible, (v) consequential, consectary, (n) entourage, chase, followers, pursuit, audience, train, clientele, shadowing, surveillance, (adv) under.
- **наступник** 1. successor; *synonyms* (*n*) heir, substitute, beneficiary, inheritor, offspring, replacement, scion, sequel; *antonyms* (*n*) forerunner, ancestor, precursor, predecessor, 2. heir; *synonyms* (*n*) successor, descendant, heritor, progeny, receiver.
- HACУЩНИЙ vital; synonyms (adj) critical, essential, indispensable, animated, alive, crucial, fundamental, important, lively, main, necessary, chief, momentous, live, dynamic; antonyms (adj) trivial, insignificant, minor, optional, unimportant.
- **натирання** rubbing; *synonyms* (*n*) attrition, friction, abrasion, detrition, grinding, resistance.
- HATHCK 1. rush; synonyms (n) hurry, charge, flood, flow, attack, (ν) dash, gush, race, run, speed, dart, hasten, stream, (adj) burst, spurt, 2. Onset; synonyms (n) incursion, aggression, assault, beginning, inroad, onslaught, birth, commencement, dawn, onrush, outbreak, invasion, offensive, foray, advent, 3. stress; synonyms (n) accent, emphasis, pressure, tension, force, importance, pinch, effort, (ν) strain, emphasize, accentuate, emphasise, punctuate, underline, trouble, 4.

- pressure; *synonyms* (*n*) compulsion, constraint, duress, exigency, influence, insistence, load, urge, weight, emergency, hardship, jam, (*v*) drive, press, coerce; *antonym* (*n*) persuasion, **5**. push; *synonyms* (*n*) thrust, jolt, poke, elbow, energy, (*v*) impel, crowd, jab, jostle, nudge, prod, rush, boost, fight, incite; *antonyms* (*v*) pull, drag, haul.
- **HATUCHEHHЯ** pressing; *synonyms* (*v*) exigent, importunate, important, (*adj*) imperative, immediate, critical, imperious, instant, insistent, burning, serious, grave, (*n*) urgent, dishing, press.
- HATOBIT 1. crowd; synonyms (n) huddle, swarm, collection, crew, press, circle, cluster, army, assembly, concourse, congregation, (v) bunch, flock, squeeze, compress; antonym (v) disperse, 2. mob; synonyms (n) crowd, gang, pack, mass, horde, band, rabble, company, clamor, body, group, herd, masses, (v) throng, crush, 3. flock; synonyms (n) bevy, covey, troop, cloud, batch, drove, mob, pile, shoal, (v) assemble, clump, collect, congregate, flood, (adj) peck, 4. drove; synonyms (n) multitude, host, legion, school.
- HATYPA 1. spirit; synonyms (n) apparition, courage, ghost, life, mood, bravery, character, disposition, energy, enthusiasm, essence, heart, mind, phantom, (adj) animation; antonyms (n) lethargy, body, 2. nature; synonyms (n) class, creation, quality, breed, attribute, constitution, humor, manner, mettle, temperament, type, genus, characteristic, complexion, (adj) kind.
- натуральний 1. natural; synonyms (adj) inherent, innate, artless, instinctive, unaffected, congenital, essential, genuine, inborn, intrinsic, native, normal, crude, ingenuous, naive; antonyms (adj) artificial, affected, cultivated, false, refined, paranormal, supernatural, unnatural, 2. real; synonyms (adj) material, physical, true, concrete, literal, natural, positive, pure, right, good, absolute, certain, honest, (n) authentic, (v) actual; antonyms (adj) unreal, imaginary, apparent, fake, bogus, deceptive, fantasy, imitation, insubstantial, mock, nominal, (v) pretend.
- **натхнення** inspiration; *synonyms* (*n*) afflatus, infusion, breath, encouragement, idea, incentive, inhalation, revelation, genius, notion, aspiration, enthusiasm, impulse, (*v*) illumination, impression.
- HATЯΓ 1. bent; synonyms (adj) arched, curved, bended, crooked, deformed, intent, (n) aptitude, inclination, propensity, fancy, ability, bias, flair, gift, leaning; antonym (adj) straight, 2. strain; synonyms (n) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (ν) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; antonym (ν) relax.
- HATЯΓΑΤΗ 1. draw; synonyms (v) attract, drag, delineate, pull, depict, derive, describe, design, tie, bring, charm, haul, (n) allure, attraction, draft; antonyms (v) push, repel, 2. strain; synonyms (n) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, reach, (v) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate; antonym (v) relax.
- **НАТЯГНУТИЙ 1.** forced; *synonyms* (*adj*) compulsory, compelled, bound, artificial, constrained, involuntary, unnatural, farfetched, false, labored, obligatory, obliged, strained; *antonyms* (*adj*) free,

- unprovoked, spontaneous, voluntary, **2**. tense; *synonyms* (*adj*) edgy, nervous, taut, stiff, uptight, jumpy, wired, stretched, jittery, tight, dramatic, (*v*) overwrought, strain, extend, tighten; *antonyms* (*adj*) relaxed, calm, comfortable, tranquil, loose, (*v*) relax.
- натяк 1. hint; synonyms (n) clue, intimation, suggestion, trace, allusion, cue, inkling, implication, (v) suggest, dash, tip, touch, allude, imply, (adj) intimate; antonym (n) overtone, 2. suggestion; synonyms (n) hint, advice, proposal, counsel, proposition, recommendation, sign, indication, insinuation, offer, plan, prompting, motion, overture, advance, 3. tip; synonyms (n) top, peak, point, pinnacle, apex, bribe, crown, gratuity, summit, extremity, (v) incline, tilt, dump, lean, slant.
- натякати 1. hint; synonyms (n) clue, intimation, suggestion, trace, allusion, cue, inkling, implication, (v) suggest, dash, tip, touch, allude, imply, (adj) intimate; antonym (n) overtone, 2. imply; synonyms (v) connote, denote, hint, involve, entail, mean, argue, betoken, convey, indicate, implicate, carry, conceive, comprise, (n) signify, 3. intimate; synonyms (adj) close, confidential, informal, inner, internal, bosom, friendly, near, personal, (v) express, insinuate, (n) familiar, confidante, crony, (adv) dear; antonym (adj) distant.
- Hayka 1. science; synonyms (n) learning, lore, knowledge, literature, skill, erudition, (adj) art, 2. knowledge; synonyms (n) information, comprehension, acquaintance, grasp, intelligence, science, understanding, enlightenment, attainment, appreciation, dexterity, education, experience, (v) cognition, (adj) wisdom; antonym (n) ignorance.
- науковий 1. scientific; synonyms (adj) technical, mathematical, exact, punctual, accurate, artistic, objective, shipshape, learned, precise, scientifical, analytical, clinical, detached, disinterested; antonym (adj) theoretical, 2. learned; synonyms (v) knowing, (adj) erudite, educated, enlightened, knowledgeable, wise, academic, scholarly, bookish, cultured, intellectual, lettered, literary, studious, informed; antonyms (adj) ignorant, innate.
- **HaΦτa** oil; *synonyms* (*n*) petroleum, fat, ointment, salve, cream, fuel, cerate, lotion, (*v*) lubricate, anoint, anele, glycerine.
- **НАФТОВИЙ** oil; *synonyms* (n) petroleum, fat, ointment, salve, cream, fuel, cerate, lotion, (v) lubricate, anoint, anele, glycerine.
- **ΗΑΦΤΟΠΡΟДУΚΤ** oil; *synonyms* (n) petroleum, fat, ointment, salve, cream, fuel, cerate, lotion, (ν) lubricate, anoint, anele, glycerine.
- **HAXABCTBO** assurance; *synonyms* (*n*) confidence, belief, guarantee, pledge, affiance, certitude, conviction, faith, nerve, poise, promise, reliance, security, sureness, trust; *antonym* (*n*) insecurity.
- HAXILT 1. inclination; synonyms (n) disposition, desire, bent, fancy, affection, leaning, tendency, drift, appetite, bias, dip, proclivity, disposal, liking, mind; antonyms (n) disinclination, reluctance, 2. tip; synonyms (n) top, hint, peak, point, pinnacle, apex, bribe, clue, crown, gratuity, (ν) incline, tilt, dump, lean, slant, 3. slope; synonyms (n) declivity, decline, descent, fall, grade, gradient, hill, inclination, brae, hillside, (ν) pitch, cant, bank, tip, (adj)

- obliquity, **4**. leaning; **synonyms** (n) propensity, fondness, penchant, predilection, inclining, list, predisposition, preference, (*adj*) canted, inclined, oblique, partiality, tilted, slanting, sloping; **antonym** (*adj*) level.
- HAXUJEHHM inclination; synonyms (n) disposition, desire, bent, fancy, affection, leaning, tendency, drift, appetite, bias, dip, proclivity, disposal, liking, mind; antonyms (n) disinclination, reluctance.
- HAXHJATH 1. tip; synonyms (n) top, hint, peak, point, pinnacle, apex, bribe, clue, crown, gratuity, (v) incline, tilt, dump, lean, slant, 2. lean; synonyms (adj) emaciated, gaunt, thin, bony, lank, lanky, scrawny, (v) bend, list, bow, careen, pitch, slope, tip, (n) inclination; antonyms (adj) fat, plump.
- HAXUJITUCS 1. lean; synonyms (adj) emaciated, gaunt, thin, bony, lank, lanky, (v) incline, bend, list, slant, bow, careen, pitch, (n) tilt, inclination; antonyms (adj) fat, plump, 2. decline; synonyms (n) decay, declension, decrease, dip, declination, (v) wane, drop, reject, fall, abate, ebb, fail, refuse, sink, deny; antonyms (n) improvement, recovery, development, growth, rebirth, (v) increase, rise, accept, flourish, improve.
- **націона**лізм nationalism; *synonyms* (*n*) chauvinism, patriotism, loyalty, partisanship, xenophobia, devotion.
- HauioHanict nationalist; synonyms (adj) nationalistic, chauvinistic, jingoistic, separatist, superpatriotic, ultranationalistic, (n) patriot, loyalist, compatriot, partisan.
- **націоналістичний** nationalist; *synonyms* (*adf*) nationalistic, chauvinistic, jingoistic, separatist, superpatriotic, ultranationalistic, (*n*) patriot, loyalist, compatriot, partisan.
- **національний** national; *synonyms* (*adj*) internal, domestic, home, civil, interior, ethnic, federal, native, public, civic, racial, (*n*) citizen, local, subject, inhabitant; *antonyms* (*adj*) international, foreign, private, (*n*) foreigner.
- HAUIOHAJIbHICTb nationality; *synonyms* (n) nation, nationalism, patriotism, people, civism, race, folk, nationalness, birth, origin, residency, rights.
- Hauis 1. nation; synonyms (n) state, country, kingdom, commonwealth, community, land, people, nationality, public, tribe, clan, folk, republic, race, territory, 2. people; synonyms (n) nation, family, multitude, populace, mob, flock, citizenry, crowd, inhabitants, kin, (v) inhabit, occupy, reside, dwell, live, 3. nationality; synonyms (n) nationalism, patriotism, civism, nationalness, birth, origin, residency, rights.
- начальник 1. chief; synonyms (adj) head, principal, cardinal, capital, arch, central, essential, first, main, (n) administrator, boss, captain, executive, leader, paramount; antonyms (adj) minor, associate, secondary, 2. boss; synonyms (n) chief, governor, overseer, superior, ruler, director, foreman, manager, stud, superintendent, supervisor, (v) administer, govern, direct, manage, 3. director; synonyms (n) commander, chairman, coach, controller, guide, master, officer, inspector, instructor, pilot, trainer, (v) conductor, 4. superior; synonyms (adj) senior, dominant, better, exceptional, predominant, elder, great, arrogant, eminent, excellent, high, higher, lofty, proud, select;

- antonyms (adj) humble, worse, poor, (n) inferior, subordinate, subscript, **5**. manager; synonyms (n) handler, entrepreneur, owner; antonym (n) underling.
- **начерк 1**. sketch; synonyms (n) plan, drawing, outline, scheme, cartoon, project, (v) design, paint, draft, draw, picture, chart, delineate, depict, describe, **2**. outline; synonyms (n) sketch, edge, abstract, contour, digest, figure, frame, synopsis, brief, draught, (v) line, form, border, adumbrate, blueprint.
- **НАШИЙНИК** collar; *synonyms* (*n*) arrest, choker, pinch, ruff, chaplet, flange, (*v*) catch, apprehend, capture, clutch, grab, nail, cop, get, grasp.
- HAЩАДКИ succession; *synonyms* (n) sequence, round, run, series, chain, lineage, row, string, continuation, concatenation, course, order, procession, reversion, consecution.
- HAЩАДОК 1. child (дитина); synonyms (n) baby, boy, babe, bairn, brat, girl, infant, juvenile, kid, minor, toddler, tot, youngster, innocent, imp; antonym (n) adult,
  2. son; synonyms (n) offspring, lad, child, descendant, logos, word, bible, countersign, discussion, intelligence, news, parole, password, schoolboy, scripture,
  3. offspring; synonyms (n) issue, progeny, brood, children, family, descendants, lineage, posterity, race, seed, successor, young, (v) breed, fruit, generation.
- НАЯВНИЙ 1. available; synonyms (adj) accessible, free, possible, attainable, convenient, handy, obtainable, open, ready, uncommitted, usable, vacant, valid, (adv) present, (n) applicable; antonyms (adj) unavailable, occupied, suppressed, concealed, engaged, 2. stock; synonyms (n) breed, lineage, store, goods, ancestry, descent, family, hoard, origin, race, backlog, birth, (adj) regular, (v) handle, supply, 3. present; synonyms (adj) grant, confer, (n) gift, donation, (v) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (adv) absent.
- HAЯBHICTЬ 1. availability; synonyms (n) accessibility, handiness, approachability, availableness, opening, supply, 2. presence; synonyms (n) appearance, front, attendance, bearing, manner, mien, carriage, air, comportment, figure, demeanor, company, aspect, look, (adj) breeding; antonyms (n) absence, nonattendance.
- **HE** not; *synonyms* (*adv*) no, nay, nor, nowise, never, (*adj*) shaven, shorn.
- **НЕАБИЯКИЙ** decent; *synonyms* (*adj*) proper, adequate, appropriate, acceptable, becoming, comely, decorous, honest, modest, respectable, right, seemly, sufficient, chaste, ethical; *antonyms* (*adj*) immoral, unwholesome, inappropriate, disreputable, filthy, inadequate, indecent, unsuitable.
- **НЕАДЕКВАТНИЙ** inadequate; *synonyms* (*adj*) insufficient, faulty, defective, deficient, flimsy, poor, feeble, imperfect, inappropriate, incapable, incompetent, ineffective, short, improper, impotent; *antonyms* (*adj*) adequate, ample, enough, passable, competent, reasonable, strong.
- **ne6arato 1**. little; *synonyms* (*adj*) small, diminutive, insignificant, brief, minute, petty, short, some, tiny, exiguous, light, baby, bantam, (v) dash, bit; *antonyms*

- (adj) big, enormous, large, important, **2**. few; **synonyms** (adj) infrequent, rare, scarce, occasional, sporadic, uncommon, erratic, imperceptible, inconsequential, intermittent, middling, negligible, paltry, piddling, scattered; **antonyms** (n) plenty, (adj) many, countless, innumerable, various.
- **небажаний 1**. undesirable; *synonyms* (*adj*) unpleasant, unwelcome, inexpedient, distasteful, objectionable, undesired, unsuitable, unwanted, improper, intolerable, unalluring, unattractive, wrong; *antonyms* (*adj*) desirable, wanted, welcome, **2**. unwanted; *synonyms* (*adj*) unasked, undesirable, needless, superfluous, redundant, leftover, uninvited.
- **небажання** reluctance; *synonyms* (*n*) disinclination, aversion, hesitation, indisposition, distaste, disgust, dislike, opposition, repugnance, unwillingness, diffidence, hesitancy, scruple; *antonym* (*n*) inclination.
- **небезпека** danger; *synonyms* (*n*) risk, hazard, peril, chance, jeopardy, threat, trouble, precariousness, slipperiness, difficulty, insecurity, exposure, hardship; *antonyms* (*n*) safety, security.
- небезпечний 1. dangerous; synonyms (adj) critical, grave, serious, severe, adventurous, unhealthy, chancy, dicey, hazardous, hurtful, perilous, precarious, threatening, unsafe, poisonous; antonyms (adj) safe, secure, stable, 2. critical; synonyms (adj) acute, decisive, delicate, important, pressing, ticklish, urgent, vital, crucial, dangerous, fastidious, imperative, minute, momentous, (v) censorious; antonyms (adj) complimentary, trivial, positive, flattering, insignificant, approving, unimportant, 3. hazardous; synonyms (adj) risky, insecure, uncertain, awkward, explosive, treacherous, venturesome, venturous, (n) daring, 4. serious; synonyms (adj) heavy, sedate, austere, great, hard, considerable, earnest, grievous, sad, sober, bad, big, deep, major, solemn; antonyms (adj) frivolous, lighthearted, cheerful, flippant, humorous, mild, minor, playful, slight, 5. nasty; synonyms (adj) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, awful, mean, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, distasteful, evil, obnoxious, raw, repulsive; antonyms (adj) agreeable, kind, pleasant, nice, charitable, lovely.
- **HEBE3IIE4HICTB** gravity; *synonyms* (n) earnestness, solemnity, graveness, gravitation, seriousness, significance, weight, sedateness, austerity, importance, moment, staidness, gloominess, sobriety, (v) poise; *antonyms* (n) flippancy, insignificance, lightheartedness.
- небезпечно dangerously; synonyms (adv) perilously, precariously, hazardously, seriously, harmfully, insecurely, awkwardly, deceitfully, desperately, fatally, painfully, severely, (adj) gravely, badly, critically; antonym (adv) reasonably.
- **Heбeca** heaven; *synonyms* (*n*) paradise, bliss, glory, nirvana, sky, ecstasy, utopia; *antonym* (*n*) hell.
- **небіж** nephew; *synonyms* (n) aunt, uncle.
- **НЕБЛАГОРОДНИЙ** base; *synonyms* (n) foundation, basis, (adj) bottom, abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, (v) ground, found; *antonyms* (n) summit, top, (adj) noble.
- **He6o 1**. sky; *synonyms* (*n*) air, heaven, atmosphere, heavens, space, (*v*) fling, flip, pitch, agitate, alternate,

- cant, chuck, convulse, deliver, discard, **2**. heaven; *synonyms* (*n*) paradise, bliss, glory, nirvana, sky, ecstasy, utopia; *antonym* (*n*) hell, **3**. blue (блакитний, синій); *synonyms* (*adj*) azure, depressed, down, gloomy, low, cheerless, dejected, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, naughty, sad, sapphire, spicy, black.
- HEBБЛАГАННИЙ grim; synonyms (adj) dreadful, austere, cheerless, dark, dour, dreary, forbidding, ghastly, glum, dire, hard, awful, bleak, depressing, dismal; antonyms (adj) cheerful, bright.
- HEBBIUJIMBO roughly; synonyms (adv) coarsely, almost, around, rough, harshly, some, generally, hardly, violently, fiercely, (prep) about, approximately, circa, (adi) nearly; antonyms (adv) gently, softly, smoothly.
- **HEBГAMOBHИЙ** restless; *synonyms* (*adj*) fidgety, nervous, uneasy, unquiet, agitated, apprehensive, fretful, impatient, restive, feverish, turbulent, jumpy, disturbed, edgy, (*v*) anxious; *antonyms* (*adj*) calm, relaxed.
- HEBДАЛИЙ 1. unfortunate; synonyms (adj) inauspicious, poor, sad, bad, disastrous, hapless, inopportune, adverse, calamitous, deplorable, infelicitous, lamentable, unlucky, untoward, ill; antonyms (adj) fortunate, lucky, 2. unsuccessful; synonyms (adj) fruitless, futile, unfortunate, ineffective, stillborn, unhappy, vain, (v) abortive, sterile; antonym (adj) successful, 3. unhappy; synonyms (adj) depressed, dismal, gloomy, melancholy, disconsolate, distressed, low, miserable, sorrowful, disappointed, downcast, mournful, sorry, unpleasant, dejected; antonyms (adj) happy, cheerful, pleased, satisfied.
- HEBJAXA failure; synonyms (n) bankruptey, failing, breakdown, decline, deficiency, debacle, defeat, disappointment, disaster, downfall, error, loser, loss, abortion, default; antonyms (n) success, achievement, hit, winner, victory, achiever, attainment, capability, growth.
- HEBДAЧA 1. abortion (aбopt); *synonyms* (n) miscarriage, failure, fiasco, abortive, aborsement, castling, freak, termination, aborting, blunder, disappointment, incompletion, misadventure, **2**. failure; *synonyms* (n) bankruptcy, failing, breakdown, decline, deficiency, debacle, defeat, disaster, downfall, error, loser, loss, abortion, default, collapse; *antonyms* (n) success, achievement, hit, winner, victory, achiever, attainment, capability, growth.
- **НЕВДАЧЛИВИЙ** unsuccessful; *synonyms* (*adj*) fruitless, futile, unfortunate, unlucky, ineffective, stillborn, unhappy, vain, (v) abortive, sterile; *antonym* (*adj*) successful.
- HEBAOBOJEHHSI complaint; synonyms (n) accusation, ailment, charge, affection, disease, disorder, ill, illness, lament, plaint, protest, sickness, wail, whine, claim.
- HEBEJIИКИЙ 1. petty; synonyms (adj) insignificant, frivolous, little, paltry, trivial, light, mean, negligible, puny, minute, exiguous, measly, fiddling, fine, footling; antonyms (adj) major, important, 2. modest; synonyms (adj) humble, bashful, diffident, lowly, moderate, gentle, chaste, decent, low, meek, small, unassuming, unobtrusive, distant, coy; antonyms (adj) arrogant, conceited, elaborate, pompous, pretentious, proud, self-

- important, showy, spectacular, boastful, conspicuous, grand, immodest, ostentatious, **3.** moderate; *synonyms* (*adj*) temperate, abstemious, middling, mild, easy, (*v*) calm, mitigate, allay, curb, diminish, lessen, ease, cool, abate, (*adv*) check; *antonyms* (*adj*) extreme, immoderate, radical, (*v*) increase, intensify.
- **невнгода** disadvantage; *synonyms* (*n*) deprivation, inconvenience, limitation, loss, damage, detriment, failing, fault, flaw, harm, hurt, liability, snag, awkwardness, penalty; *antonyms* (*n*) benefit, bonus, value, (*v*) advantage.
- **невидимий 1**. invisible; *synonyms* (*adj*) imperceptible, hidden, inconspicuous, obscure, intangible, sightless, concealed, impalpable, occult, unseeable, unseen, evanescent; *antonyms* (*adj*) obvious, visible, conspicuous, **2**. blind; *synonyms* (*adj*) undiscerning, (*v*) bedazzle, daze, dazzle, (*n*) screen, curtain, shutter, awning, drape, trick, veil, camouflage, cheat, cloak, concealment; *antonym* (*adj*) sighted.
- невизначений 1. vague; synonyms (adj) indeterminate, indistinct, obscure, ambiguous, faint, indefinite, uncertain, undefined, undetermined, feeble, dim, fuzzy, hazy, (v) loose, equivocal; antonyms (adj) clear, definite, distinct, exact, particular, precise, specific, sure, 2. ambiguous; synonyms (adj) evasive, slippery, amphibolous, confused, cryptic, doubtful, dubious, enigmatic, imprecise, misleading, nebulous, oracular, puzzling, questionable, (v) vague; antonyms (adj) unambiguous, unequivocal, 3. uncertain; synonyms (adj) changeable, chancy, precarious, suspicious, unsafe, unsettled, unsure, variable, debatable, hazardous, risky, fitful, hesitant, inconstant, insecure; antonyms (adj) certain, decisive, decided, inevitable, safe, strongminded, unquestionable.
- **НЕВИКОНАНИЙ** outstanding; *synonyms* (*adj*) eminent, due, conspicuous, great, owing, famous, distinguished, excellent, exceptional, notable, noteworthy, prominent, unpaid, major, brilliant; *antonyms* (*adj*) ordinary, paid, inferior.
- HEBИМУШЕНИЙ 1. informal; synonyms (adj) colloquial, familiar, casual, easy, free, cozy, unofficial, chatty, cosy, homely, wanton, comfortable, conversational, everyday, intimate; antonyms (adj) formal, authorized, official, 2. easy; synonyms (adj) convenient, gentle, graceful, lenient, light, clear, contented, comfy, cushy, easygoing, effortless, informal, leisurely, (adv) soft, easily; antonyms (adj) difficult, arduous, demanding, hard, laborious, burdensome, particular, strenuous, tough, awkward, testing, uneasy.
- HEBUMYIIIEHICTb ease; synonyms (n) comfort, convenience, rest, aid, leisure, relief, repose, satisfaction, (v) alleviate, assuage, relieve, allay, facilitate, relax, (adj) smooth; antonyms (n) difficulty, discomfort, awkwardness, formality, (v) aggravate, worsen.
- **невинний** innocent; *synonyms* (*adj*) harmless, chaste, artless, clear, ingenuous, innocuous, guileless, guiltless, ignorant, blameless, faultless, gullible, naive, pure, spotless; *antonyms* (*adj*) guilty, culpable, responsible, wary, wicked.
- **HEBUHHICTЬ** innocence; *synonyms* (n) cleanness, blamelessness, chastity, ignorance, artlessness,

- gullibility, ingenuousness, purity, innocency, simplicity, sinlessness, virtue, candor, frankness, honor; *antonyms* (n) guilt, sophistication.
- **НЕВИНУВАТИЙ** innocent; *synonyms* (*adj*) harmless, chaste, artless, clear, ingenuous, innocuous, guileless, guiltless, ignorant, blameless, faultless, gullible, naive, pure, spotless; *antonyms* (*adj*) guilty, culpable, responsible, wary, wicked.
- HEBUHYBATICTb innocence; synonyms (n) cleanness, blamelessness, chastity, ignorance, artlessness, gullibility, ingenuousness, purity, innocency, simplicity, sinlessness, virtue, candor, frankness, honor; antonyms (n) guilt, sophistication.
- невиразний 1. vague; synonyms (adj) indeterminate, indistinct, obscure, ambiguous, faint, indefinite, uncertain, undefined, undetermined, feeble, dim, fuzzy, hazy, (v) loose, equivocal; antonyms (adj) clear, definite, distinct, exact, particular, precise, specific, sure, 2. dim; synonyms (adj) dark, cloudy, dull, bleak, dense, gloomy, misty, opaque, (v) blur, darken, cloud, pale, tarnish, blear, blind; antonyms (adj) bright, brilliant, intelligent, clever, strong, (v) brighten.
- **НЕВИРІШЕНИЙ** pending; *synonyms* (*prep*) during, awaiting, (adj) forthcoming, undecided, unresolved, unsettled, outstanding, hanging, looming, pendulous, suspended, considering, doubtful, (n) abeyance, (adv) while; antonym (adj) distant.
- HEBUCOKUЙ low (низький); synonyms (adj) contemptible, abject, humble, ignoble, base, blue, common, deep, dejected, depressed, down, downcast, downhearted, (adv) gentle, (n) depression; antonyms (adj) cheerful, happy, high-pitched, loud, important, piercing, (n) high.
- HEBIД'ЄМНИЙ 1. inherent; synonyms (adj) congenital, inborn, inbred, intrinsic, essential, immanent, innate, instinctive, native, born, constitutional, fundamental, hereditary, inbuilt, internal; antonym (adj) superficial, 2. integral; synonyms (adj) complete, entire, inherent, full, intact, total, constituent, all, integrant, organic, perfect, unbroken, exponential, (n) whole, differential.
- HEBIДКЛАДНИЙ 1. immediate; synonyms (adj) close, prompt, direct, sudden, near, present, quick, expeditious, fast, hasty, instant, proximate, speedy, express, adjacent; antonyms (adj) slow, gradual, consecutive, deliberate, 2. pressing; synonyms (v) exigent, importunate, important, (adj) imperative, immediate, critical, imperious, insistent, burning, serious, grave, earnest, (n) urgent, dishing, press.
- **невідомий** unknown; *synonyms* (*adj*) secret, strange, hidden, unfamiliar, nameless, obscure, unidentified, anonymous, foreign, mysterious, new, undiscovered, (*n*) stranger, alien, foreigner; *antonyms* (*adj*) known, familiar, famous, recognized, well-known.
- **HEBIДOMICTЬ** uncertainty; *synonyms* (*n*) doubt, doubtfulness, distrust, indecision, suspicion, suspense, hesitation, irresolution, dubiety, incertitude, question, dubiousness, indecisiveness, ambiguity, (*adj*) instability; *antonyms* (*n*) certainty, confidence, decisiveness, clarity.
- **невідповідний 1**. inappropriate; *synonyms* (*adj*) improper, inapplicable, incompatible, incongruous,

- awkward, undue, incorrect, irrelevant, unapt, unbecoming, unseemly, unsuitable, wrong, unbefitting, (v) inapt; antonyms (adj) appropriate, proper, suitable, fitting, right, befitting, 2. inadequate; synonyms (adj) insufficient, faulty, defective, deficient, flimsy, poor, feeble, imperfect, inappropriate, incapable, incompetent, ineffective, short, impotent, bad; antonyms (adj) adequate, ample, enough, passable, competent, reasonable, strong.
- **НЕВІДПОВІДНІСТЬ** contradiction; *synonyms* (n) antithesis, denial, clash, contrast, disagreement, discrepancy, inconsistency, opposite, refutation, reverse; *antonym* (n) agreement.
- **невільник** slave; *synonyms* (*n*) serf, servant, bondman, inferior, thrall, bondsman, captive, vassal, dependent, (*v*) labor, drudge, fag, toil, work, moil.
- HEBJACTUBHH alien; synonyms (adj) foreign, strange, unknown, extrinsic, exotic, extraneous, remote, unfamiliar, unusual, (n) foreigner, outsider, stranger, emigrant, (v) alienate, estrange; antonyms (adj) familiar, (n) native, citizen.
- **невловимий** elusive; *synonyms* (*adj*) evasive, subtle, insidious, fugitive, intangible, shifty, slippery, ambiguous, artful.
- HEBMIJIMM ineffective; synonyms (adj) empty, incompetent, futile, impotent, inadequate, ineffectual, inefficient, null, fruitless, incapable, powerless, unable, useless, worthless, feckless; antonyms (adj) effective, strong, successful, useful.
- НЕВПЕВНЕНИЙ 1. uncertain; synonyms (adj) ambiguous, changeable, doubtful, dubious, questionable, vague, chancy, equivocal, indistinct, precarious, suspicious, unsafe, unsettled, unsure, (v) indefinite; antonyms (adj) certain, definite, clear, decisive, sure, decided, inevitable, safe, strong-minded, unquestionable, 2. unsure; synonyms (adj) uncertain, insecure, diffident, tentative, unclear, hesitant, incertain, indecisive, shy, timid, undecided.
- невпевненість uncertainty; synonyms (n) doubt, doubtfulness, distrust, indecision, suspicion, suspense, hesitation, irresolution, dubiety, incertitude, question, dubiousness, indecisiveness, ambiguity, (adj) instability; antonyms (n) certainty, confidence, decisiveness, clarity.
- HEBPIBHOBAЖЕНИЙ uneven; synonyms (adj) rough, unequal, irregular, jagged, erratic, patchy, rugged, spotty, disproportionate, ragged, craggy, crooked, unbalanced, (v) broken, (n) harsh; antonyms (adj) even, smooth, straight, equal, symmetrical.
- негайний 1. immediate; synonyms (adj) close, prompt, direct, sudden, near, present, quick, expeditious, fast, hasty, instant, proximate, speedy, express, adjacent; antonyms (adj) slow, gradual, consecutive, deliberate, 2. urgent; synonyms (adj) pressing, importunate, imperative, immediate, earnest, critical, serious, vital, insistent, compelling, eager, burning, necessary, (v) important, clamorous; antonym (adj) trivial.
- **негайно 1**. immediately, *synonyms* (*adv*) directly, forthwith, instantly, now, right, direct, readily, instantaneously, presently, rapidly, incontinently, momentarily, summarily, exactly, (*adj*) instanter; *antonyms* (*adv*) later, slowly, **2**. instantly; *synonyms*

- (adv) immediately, promptly, outright, quickly, soon, straight, straightaway, suddenly; antonym (adv) eventually, 3. now; synonyms (adv) here, currently, already, nowadays, today, just, (adj) current, present, trendy, immediate, fashionable, popular, (prep) because, 4. promptly; synonyms (adv) fast, hastily, punctually, quick, swiftly, early, hurriedly, pronto, speedily; antonym (adv) late.
- **НЕГАРНИЙ** bad (поганий); *synonyms* (*adj*) evil, adverse, harmful, immoral, naughty, poisonous, sad, sinister, wicked, malicious, infamous, appalling, awful, damaging, (*v*) decayed; *antonyms* (*adj*) fresh, pleasant, well, well-behaved, (*n*) good.
- HEΓΑΤИΒ negative; *synonyms* (*adj*) minus, adverse, denying, damaging, destructive, contrary, unfavorable, (*n*) denial, (*v*) gainsay, veto, deny, disavow, kill, negate, controvert; *antonyms* (*adj*) positive, optimistic, assenting, (*n*) affirmative.
- негативний 1. negative; *synonyms* (*adj*) minus, adverse, denying, damaging, destructive, contrary, unfavorable, (*n*) denial, (*v*) gainsay, veto, deny, disavow, kill, negate, controvert; *antonyms* (*adj*) positive, optimistic, assenting, (*n*) affirmative, 2. minus; *synonyms* (*n*) negative, disadvantage, subtraction, (*v*) bereft, lack, bereaved, denuded, (*adj*) minor, less, lacking, deficient, lesser, short, (*adv*) without; *antonym* (*prep*) plus.
- **НЕГІДНИК** heel; *synonyms* (n) blackguard, counter, dog, cad, scoundrel, shoe, sole, villain, bounder, (v) list, lean.
- недавній 1. recent; synonyms (adj) late, modern, new, novel, latest, contemporary, fresh, green, past, current, last, latter, final, immediate, present; antonym (adj) old,
  2. latter; synonyms (adj) ultimate, later, terminal, following, posterior, recent, eventual, concluding, lastmentioned; antonym (n) former.
- **НЕДАВНО 1**. recently; *synonyms* (*adv*) newly, freshly, lately, latterly, new, fresh, late, anew, (*n*) yesterday, (*adj*) afresh, **2**. newly; *synonyms* (*adv*) recently, again.
- **НЕДАЛЕКО 1.** about; *synonyms* (*prep*) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, (*adv*) around, approximately, almost, nearly, most, roughly, in, nearby, (*adj*) some, near; *antonyms* (*prep*) exactly, precisely, **2**. near; *synonyms* (*prep*) about, by, (*adv*) close, towards, (*adj*) adjoining, adjacent, contiguous, imminent, impending, narrow, coming, closer, (*v*) familiar, approximate, approach; *antonym* (*adj*) distant.
- **НЕДБАЙЛИВІСТЬ** negligence; *synonyms* (*n*) neglect, carelessness, disregard, inattention, indifference, heedlessness, neglectfulness, inattentiveness, recklessness; *antonym* (*n*) attention.
- **НЕДБАЛИЙ 1.** casual; *synonyms* (*adj*) accidental, adventitious, careless, chance, irregular, nonchalant, occasional, coincidental, contingent, cursory, easy, fortuitous, haphazard, insouciant, lax; *antonyms* (*adj*) deliberate, formal, thorough, **2.** careless; *synonyms* (*adj*) inconsiderate, forgetful, inattentive, reckless, hasty, imprudent, inadvertent, incautious, listless, messy, mindless, neglectful, negligent, (*v*) heedless, (*adv*) thoughtless; *antonyms* (*adj*) careful, cautious, prudent,

- attentive, diligent, meticulous, thoughtful, guarded, methodical, strict, wary.
- **недбалість** negligence; *synonyms* (*n*) neglect, carelessness, disregard, inattention, indifference, heedlessness, neglectfulness, inattentiveness, recklessness; *antonym* (*n*) attention.
- **НЕДІЙСНИЙ** ineffective; *synonyms* (*adj*) empty, incompetent, futile, impotent, inadequate, ineffectual, inefficient, null, fruitless, incapable, powerless, unable, useless, worthless, feckless; *antonyms* (*adj*) effective, strong, successful, useful.
- **недобрий** wicked; *synonyms* (*adj*) atrocious, bad, evil, sinful, vicious, depraved, immoral, mischievous, unholy, vile, corrupt, criminal, diabolical, foul, hellish; *antonyms* (*adj*) good, innocent, kind, moral, pious, pure.
- **НЕДОГЛЯД** omission; *synonyms* (n) failure, error, exclusion, fault, ellipsis, inadvertence, mistake, neglect, oversight, flaw, default, deletion, pretermission, slip, (adj) defect; *antonyms* (n) inclusion, adherence.
- недолік 1. defect; synonyms (n) fault, blemish, blot, flaw, shortcoming, deficiency, failing, imperfection, scar, weakness, dearth, deformity, foible, (v) desert, (adj) infirmity, 2. deficiency; synonyms (n) defect, want, absence, deficit, inadequacy, lack, scarcity, failure, famine, insufficiency, scarceness, shortage, shortness, disadvantage, drought; antonyms (n) excess, sufficiency, 3. deficit; synonyms (n) arrears, shortfall, 4. disadvantage; synonyms (n) deprivation, inconvenience, limitation, loss, damage, detriment, harm, hurt, liability, snag, awkwardness, penalty; antonyms (n) benefit, bonus, value, (v) advantage, 5. objection; synonyms (n) dissent, protest, complaint, exception, grievance, gripe, disagreement, outcry, difficulty, disapproval, expostulation, criticism, challenge, drawback, question.
- **HEДOHOCOK** abortion (αδορτ); *synonyms* (n) miscarriage, failure, fiasco, abortive, aborsement, castling, freak, termination, aborting, blunder, disappointment, incompletion, misadventure.
- **недоречний** irrelevant; *synonyms* (*adj*) inappropriate, extraneous, inapplicable, insignificant, impertinent, inapposite, inconsequential, trivial, unimportant, unrelated, unsuitable, petty, minor, pointless, trifling; *antonyms* (*adj*) relevant, admissible.
- **недорогий** cheap; *synonyms* (*adj*) inexpensive, low, stingy, tacky, base, brassy, bum, cheesy, economical, flashy, mean, niggardly, reasonable, shabby, sleazy; *antonyms* (*adj*) expensive, costly, generous, tasteful, first-rate, luxurious.
- недосвідчений inexperienced; synonyms (adj) immature, naive, young, callow, raw, ignorant, new, unsophisticated, unexperienced, clumsy, strange, amateurish, awkward, inexpert, (v) green; antonyms (adj) experienced, trained, skilled, sophisticated.
- **недосконалий** 1. defective; *synonyms* (*adj*) deficient, bad, faulty, imperfect, broken, incomplete, lacking, unsound, vicious, inaccurate, rotten, erroneous, flawed, inadequate, incorrect; *antonym* (*adj*) perfect, 2. incomplete; *synonyms* (*adj*) defective, halfway, short, unfinished, half, insufficient, fragmentary, sketchy, scarce, poor, fractional, uncompleted, wanting,

- uncomplete, (n) rough; *antonyms* (adj) complete, finished, whole, **3**. faulty; *synonyms* (adj) false, wrong, damaged, amiss, tainted, blamable, mistaken, illogical; *antonyms* (adj) correct, flawless.
- **НЕДОСТАТНІЙ 1.** defective; *synonyms* (*adj*) deficient, bad, faulty, imperfect, broken, incomplete, lacking, unsound, vicious, inaccurate, rotten, erroneous, flawed, inadequate, incorrect; *antonym* (*adj*) perfect, **2**. insufficient; *synonyms* (*adj*) defective, incompetent, scanty, incapable, limited, meager, poor, small, unsatisfactory, feeble, few, incommensurate, inefficient, scant, short; *antonyms* (*adj*) sufficient, plentiful.
- **недостача 1**. shortage; synonyms (n) dearth, defect, deficiency, lack, paucity, deficit, famine, insufficiency, need, poverty, scantiness, scarcity, shortfall, want, deprivation; antonyms (n) abundance, excess, overabundance, surplus, affluence, glut, 2. lack; synonyms (n) absence, default, shortage, shortcoming, inadequacy, drought, vacancy, failing, (v) destitution, fail, fault, demand, failure, require, desire; antonyms (n) provision, (v) have, 3. absence; synonyms (n) absenteeism, nonattendance; antonyms (n) presence, attendance, 4. failing; synonyms (adj) declining, failed, wanting, deteriorating, (n) blemish, flaw, imperfection, weakness, decline, foible, frailty, infirmity, vice, blot, error, antonyms (adj) thriving, flourishing, well, (n) strength, virtue, 5. deficiency; synonyms (n) scarceness, shortness, disadvantage, defection, drawback, wantage; antonym (n) sufficiency.
- **недоступний** exclusive; *synonyms* (*adj*) individual, particular, private, single, sole, special, choice, peculiar, select, undivided, chic, elite, personal, especial, (*n*) scoop; *antonyms* (*adj*) inclusive, common.
- **НЕДОСЯЖНИЙ** superior; *synonyms* (*adj*) senior, dominant, better, exceptional, predominant, elder, great, arrogant, chief, eminent, excellent, high, higher, lofty, proud; *antonyms* (*adj*) humble, worse, poor, (*n*) inferior, subordinate, subscript.
- **НЕДОТОРКАНИЙ** sacred; *synonyms* (*adj*) hallowed, holy, consecrated, dedicated, divine, religious, pious, blessed, inviolable, spiritual, consecrate, celestial, devoted, (*v*) solemn, majestic; *antonyms* (*adj*) secular, profane.
- HEДΟΤΟΡΚΑΗΗИЙ sacred; synonyms (adj)
  hallowed, holy, consecrated, dedicated, divine, religious,
  pious, blessed, inviolable, spiritual, consecrate, celestial,
  devoted, (ν) solemn, majestic; antonyms (adj) secular,
  profane.
- HEДОТОРКАННІСТЬ immunity; synonyms (n) exemption, freedom, franchise, dispensation, privilege, exception, invulnerability, liberty, release, resistance, safety, security; antonym (n) vulnerability.
- HEДОУМКУВАТИЙ 1. daft; synonyms (adj) crazy, wacky, bonkers, demented, foolish, nutty, balmy, inane, barmy, batty, dotty, haywire, idiotic, insane, insensate; antonym (adj) sensible, 2. foolish; synonyms (adj) childish, fool, daft, dopey, dull, dumb, fatuous, preposterous, silly, stupid, unwise, anserine, dopy, imprudent, (n) absurd; antonyms (adj) wise, prudent, shrewd, visionary.

- **HEADYMCTBO** dementia; *synonyms* (n) insanity, lunacy, mania, delirium, demency, dementedness, aberration, alienation, delusion, hallucination, illusion, monomania, (adi) dementation.
- **НЕЕФЕКТИВНИЙ** inefficient; *synonyms* (*adj*) incompetent, inadequate, ineffective, ineffectual, incapable, inefficacious, feeble, impotent, futile, inactive, inept, insufficient, unable, unfit, useless; *antonym* (*adj*) efficient.
- **НЕЖИВИЙ** dead; *synonyms* (*adj*) dull, lifeless, cold, defunct, inanimate, absolute, breathless, deceased, extinct, fallen, flat, gone, idle, (*adv*) right, absolutely; *antonyms* (*adj*) alive, animate, (*n*) living.
- He3a6apom 1. shortly; synonyms (adv) presently, briefly, soon, immediately, abruptly, concisely, curtly, short, anon, now, brusquely, directly, quickly, rapidly, (adj) forthwith, 2. soon; synonyms (adv) shortly, early, betimes, promptly, soonly, erelong, fast, quick, speedily, afterward, 3. presently; synonyms (adv) currently, instantly, just.
- HEЗABEPIIIEHИЙ 1. incomplete; synonyms (adj) defective, deficient, faulty, imperfect, inadequate, halfway, lacking, short, unfinished, half, insufficient, fragmentary, sketchy, scarce, (n) rough; antonyms (adj) complete, finished, whole, 2. pending; synonyms (prep) during, awaiting, (adj) forthcoming, undecided, unresolved, unsettled, outstanding, hanging, looming, pendulous, suspended, considering, doubtful, (n) abeyance, (adv) while; antonym (adj) distant.
- **незадовільний** unsatisfactory; *synonyms* (*adj*) inadequate, insufficient, poor, deficient, bad, lame, dissatisfactory, empty, limited, mediocre, pathetic, pitiful, unacceptable, *antonyms* (*adj*) satisfactory, acceptable, reasonable, first-rate.
- **HE3AДOBOJIEHHЯ** dissatisfaction; *synonyms* (n) displeasure, disappointment, disaffection, dislike, discontent, distaste, disquiet, disapproval, disapprobation, regret, aversion, disfavor, disinclination, ennui; *antonyms* (n) satisfaction, contentment.
- HE3AЙMAHICTb integrity; synonyms (n) honesty, probity, completeness, fairness, entireness, fidelity, justice, morality, righteousness, unity, goodness, constancy, (adj) candor, honor, equity; antonyms (n) dishonesty, wickedness.
- незайнятий 1. vacant; synonyms (adj) empty, blank, hollow, bare, devoid, free, idle, unfilled, unoccupied, void, expressionless, deserted, open, vacuous, inane; antonyms (adj) full, occupied, 2. idle; synonyms (adj) inactive, indolent, lazy, baseless, frivolous, fruitless, groundless, unfounded, disengaged, flimsy, barren, dead, futile, jobless, light; antonyms (adj) busy, active, employed, (v) change, 3. unemployed; synonyms (adj) vacant, unexercised; antonym (adj) working, 4. odd; synonyms (adj) grotesque, exceptional, funny, abnormal, curious, droll, eccentric, extraordinary, singular, strange, chance, novel, anomalous, bizarre, fantastic; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, even, typical.
- **незаконний 1**. illegal; *synonyms* (*adj*) criminal, forbidden, prohibited, unauthorized, unlawful, illegitimate, illicit, lawless, taboo, wrongful; *antonyms* (*adj*) legal, lawful, honest, legitimate, official, **2**.

- unlawful; *synonyms* (*adj*) illegal, improper, irregular, outlaw, unfair, contraband, crooked, outlawed, unconventional, wrong.
- незалежний 1. independent; synonyms (adj) free, autonomous, separate, substantive, impartial, nonpartisan, sovereign, unallied, self-sufficient, detached, distinct, individual, (n) freelance, mugwump, (adv) apart; antonyms (adj) dependent, simultaneous, 2. free; synonyms (adj) loose, frank, liberal, (v) clear, exempt, liberate, discharge, excuse, extricate, relieve, disentangle, acquit, deliver, disengage, ease; antonyms (adj) bound, restricted, compelled, confined, imprisoned, repressive, secure, strict, stuck, tangled, attached, busy, (v) confine, block, cage.
- незалежність 1. independence; synonyms (n) autonomy, freedom, liberty, independency, individuality, latitude, detachment, neutrality, sovereignty, inconsequence; antonyms (n) dependence, childhood, 2. freedom; synonyms (n) exemption, deliverance, discharge, emancipation, immunity, release, escape, ease, relief, right, scope, familiarity, enfranchisement, (adj) franchise, frankness; antonyms (n) imprisonment, restriction, captivity, restraint, suppression.
- HE3A.JEЖHO absolutely; synonyms (adv) surely, utterly, categorically, completely, dead, decidedly, definitely, entirely, exactly, fully, just, precisely, purely, (int) positively, certainly; antonyms (adv) partially, doubtfully, partly.
- **HE3AMOЖНИЙ** poor; *synonyms* (adj) bad, low, miserable, paltry, deplorable, destitute, evil, inadequate, insufficient, needy, pathetic, penniless, piteous, (ν) meager, (n) mean; *antonyms* (adj) rich, wealthy, excellent, first-rate, privileged, well-off, admirable, good.
- **НЕЗАПЛЯМОВАНИЙ** fair; synonyms (adj) equitable, clear, beautiful, average, dispassionate, fine, impartial, reasonable, sweet, candid, (adv) clean, (n) bazaar, blonde, carnival, (v) bright; antonyms (adj) unfair, biased, dark, exceptional, unjust, partial, foul, imbalanced, mismatched, prejudiced, unwarranted.
- **HE3AПОВНЕНИЙ** blank; *synonyms* (*adj*) bare, empty, unfilled, clean, vacant, deadpan, dull, expressionless, impassive, inexpressive, (*n*) space, form, emptiness, gap, hiatus; *antonyms* (*adj*) animated, full, expressive.
- **HE3AXИЩЕНИЙ** naked; *synonyms* (*adj*) bald, bare, exposed, nude, open, barren, bleak, raw, unclothed, defenseless, defenceless, undraped, alone, denuded, destitute; *antonyms* (*adj*) covered, concealed.
- **HE3БАГНЕННИЙ** mysterious; *synonyms* (*adj*) hidden, inscrutable, deep, eerie, incomprehensible, inexplicable, abstruse, arcane, cryptic, dark, obscure, secret, clandestine, concealed, covert; *antonyms* (*adj*) known, straightforward, apparent, normal.
- HE3BAXAHOUM despite; synonyms (prep) notwithstanding, (conj) although, (n) spite, contempt, scorn, disdain, malice.
- **незвичайний 1**. unusual; *synonyms* (*adj*) strange, peculiar, odd, quaint, uncommon, curious, eccentric, exceptional, exotic, extraordinary, irregular, rare, remarkable, special, unprecedented; *antonyms* (*adj*)

- usual, normal, common, customary, ordinary, typical, familiar, conventional, routine, **2**. extraordinary; *synonyms* (*adj*) distinguished, abnormal, amazing, astonishing, bizarre, extra, phenomenal, unusual, famous, incredible, marvelous, memorable, notable, noteworthy, preternatural; *antonym* (*adj*) everyday, **3**. uncommon; *synonyms* (*adj*) infrequent, scarce, singular, unaccustomed, occasional, queer, different, unfamiliar, unwonted, distinctive, particular, novel, atypical, unique, unused.
- **НЕЗВИЧНИЙ 1.** uncommon; *synonyms* (*adj*) extraordinary, rare, exceptional, infrequent, odd, peculiar, scarce, singular, special, strange, unusual, unaccustomed, abnormal, occasional, remarkable; *antonyms* (*adj*) common, typical, **2.** unfamiliar; *synonyms* (*adj*) new, unacquainted, uncommon, foreign, mysterious, novel, unidentified, inexperienced, unknown, unused, unexplored; *antonyms* (*adj*) familiar, recognizable.
- незгода 1. disagreement; synonyms (n) difference, discrepancy, conflict, discord, dispute, dissidence, argument, contention, dissension, scrap, variance, battle, antagonism, altercation, clash; antonyms (n) agreement, accord, harmony, 2. breach; synonyms (n) aperture, chink, crack, crevice, fracture, gap, infringement, opening, rift, split, trespass, (v) break, rupture, contravene, fissure; antonym (n) observance.
- **незграбний** awkward; *synonyms* (*adj*) clumsy, inconvenient, crude, embarrassing, inept, sticky, uncomfortable, ungainly, untoward, left-handed, annoying, bungling, cumbersome, difficult, graceless; *antonyms* (*adj*) graceful, easy, adroit, manageable, straightforward, convenient, dexterous, helpful, rotund, simple.
- нездатний 1. inefficient; synonyms (adj) incompetent, inadequate, ineffective, ineffectual, incapable, inefficacious, feeble, impotent, futile, inactive, inept, insufficient, unable, unfit, useless; antonym (adj) efficient, 2. incapable; synonyms (adj) helpless, powerless, unqualified, inefficient, weak; antonyms (adj) capable, able, 3. unable; synonym (adj) disqualified.
- **нездатність** inability; *synonyms* (n) disability, disqualification, impotence, incapacity, incompetence, insufficiency, feebleness, helplessness, impotency, inadequacy, powerlessness, unfitness, weakness; *antonyms* (n) ability, capability, power.
- **НЕЗДОЛАННИЙ** overwhelming; *synonyms* (*adj*) overpowering, devastating, irresistible, insurmountable, crushing, monumental, amazing, astounding, tremendous, awesome, breathtaking, consuming, formidable, impossible, intense; *antonym* (*adj*) imperceptible.
- HE3ДОРОВИЙ sick; synonyms (adj) ill, queasy, ailing, indisposed, poorly, weary, invalid, diseased, morbid, sickly, nauseous, poor, crazy, disgusted, (ν) unwell; antonyms (adj) well, healthy.
- **незліченний 1**. endless; *synonyms* (*adj*) constant, continual, ceaseless, continuous, interminable, perpetual, eternal, everlasting, incessant, uninterrupted, boundless, countless, dateless, infinite, limitless; *antonyms* (*adj*) finite, temporary, intermittent, limited, restricted, **2**.

- countless; *synonyms* (*adj*) numberless, innumerable, endless, many, multitudinous, myriad, measureless, immeasurable, legion, numerous, uncounted, unnumbered, untold; *antonym* (*adj*) few, 3. overwhelming; *synonyms* (*adj*) overpowering, devastating, irresistible, insurmountable, crushing, monumental, amazing, astounding, tremendous, awesome, breathtaking, consuming, formidable, impossible, intense; *antonym* (*adj*) imperceptible.
- незмінний 1. eternal; synonyms (adj) constant, endless, perpetual, ceaseless, continual, everlasting, lasting, aeonian, boundless, deathless, enduring, immortal, unending, ageless, durable; antonyms (adj) temporary, mortal, short-lived, finite, 2. permanent; synonyms (adj) fixed, eternal, fast, perennial, immutable, indelible, abiding, continuing, standing, stationary, unchangeable, undying, (v) continuous, firm, (n) perm; antonyms (adj) fleeting, brief, impermanent, provisional, transitory, fragile, superficial, 3. fixed; synonyms (adj) determined, definite, steady, certain, decided, determinate, established, fastened, intent, permanent, resolute, rigid, set, still, (v) stable; antonyms (adj) flexible, adaptable, adjustable, changeable, movable, separate, variable, compliant, loose, moveable, portable, removable.
- **He3MiHHo** invariably; *synonyms* (*adv*) always, constantly, ever, forever, continually, incessantly, uniformly, ceaselessly, endlessly, eternally, everlastingly, interminably, (*adj*) unfailingly.
- **HE3HAŬOMEЦЬ** stranger; *synonyms* (n) alien, foreigner, outsider, newcomer, outlander, unknown; *antonyms* (n) associate, friend, native, pal.
- незнайомий 1. unfamiliar; synonyms (adj) strange, new, unaccustomed, unacquainted, uncommon, foreign, mysterious, novel, unidentified, inexperienced, unknown, unused, unusual, unexplored; antonyms (adj) familiar, recognizable, 2. strange; synonyms (adj) extraneous, peculiar, abnormal, curious, extraordinary, irregular, odd, outlandish, rare, alien, anomalous, different, eerie, exotic, marvelous; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, typical, 3. new; synonyms (adj) green, modern, original, additional, innovative, raw, recent, unprecedented, young, contemporary, current, newfangled, (adv) fresh, lately, freshly; antonyms (adj) old, outgoing, second-hand, traditional, used, less, old-fashioned, stale, (adv) past.
- **HE3HAHHЯ** ignorance; *synonyms* (*n*) darkness, illiteracy, nescience, folly, innocence, unwisdom, denseness, stupidity, obtuseness, unawareness, unenlightenment, night, unacquaintance, adversity, agnosticism; *antonyms* (*n*) knowledge, intelligence.
- незначний 1. petty; synonyms (adj) insignificant, frivolous, little, paltry, trivial, light, mean, negligible, puny, minute, exiguous, measly, fiddling, fine, footling; antonyms (adj) major, important, 2. small; synonyms (adj) narrow, inadequate, low, minor, petty, slight, remote, cramped, young, limited, diminutive, faint, humble, miniature, minuscule; antonyms (adj) bulky, colossal, considerable, enormous, extra-large, great, huge, sizeable, giant, (sym) big, large, 3. bare; synonyms (adj) naked, austere, bald, stark, bleak, desolate, devoid, exposed, mere, nude, plain, vacant, vacuous, (v) empty,

show; antonyms (adj) covered, cultivated, ornate, concealed, (v) cover, 4. little; synonyms (adj) small, brief, short, some, tiny, baby, bantam, contemptible, inconsiderable, inferior, piddling, (adv) somewhat, (v) dash, bit, (n) modicum, 5. minute; synonyms (n) instant, flash, jiffy, note, memorandum, moment, second, (adj) delicate, microscopic, atomic, careful, circumstantial, elaborate, infinitesimal, particular; antonym (adj) gigantic, 6. minor; synonyms (adj) junior, lesser, lower, inconsequential, less, marginal, secondary, subordinate, unimportant, incidental, lowly, (n) child, juvenile, youngster, adolescent; antonyms (adj) significant, basic, chief, fundamental, leading, main, overriding, superseding, serious, extensive, greater, senior, 7. slender; synonyms (adj) lean, thin, lithe, feeble, flimsy, gaunt, lissom, scanty, slim, skinny, graceful, lissome, poor, (v) meager, lank; antonyms (adj) plump, stocky, fat, wide, 8. trivial; synonyms (adj) trifling, commonplace, superficial, trite, hackneyed, banal, immaterial, idle, irrelevant, niggling, ordinary, picayune, piffling, shallow, silly; antonyms (adj) vital, profound, urgent, 9. slight; synonyms (adi) slender, fragile, tenuous, easy, (n) scorn, disdain, rebuff, contempt, (v) disregard, insult, neglect, ignore, affront, cut, offend; antonyms (adj) heavy, intense, obvious, severe, thickset.

- незручний 1. uncomfortable; synonyms (adj) awkward, embarrassing, troubled, inconvenient, difficult, discomfited, anxious, uneasy, cheerless, embarrassed, painful, (v) untoward; antonyms (adj) comfortable, relaxed, comfy, 2. awkward; synonyms (adj) clumsy, crude, inept, sticky, uncomfortable, ungainly, left-handed, annoying, bungling, cumbersome, graceless, heavy, inapt, inelegant, lumbering; antonyms (adj) graceful, easy, adroit, manageable, straightforward, convenient, dexterous, helpful, rotund, simple, 3. uneasy; synonyms (adj) fidgety, restless, apprehensive, concerned, nervous, unquiet, fretful, restive, solicitous, agitated, jittery, worried, impatient, disturbed, doubtful; antonym (adj) calm.
- HE3PYHHICTЬ 1. discomfort; synonyms (n) pain, uneasiness, annoyance, anxiety, unease, agitation, displeasure, disquiet, distress, hurt, malaise, misery, restlessness, soreness, suffering; antonyms (n) ease, comfort, 2. disadvantage; synonyms (n) deprivation, inconvenience, limitation, loss, damage, detriment, failing, fault, flaw, harm, liability, snag, awkwardness, penalty; antonyms (n) benefit, bonus, value, (v) advantage, 3. nuisance; synonyms (n) bother, harassment, hassle, irritation, pest, mischief, bore, botheration, disturbance, plague, trouble, drawback, bane, bind, (adj) grievance; antonym (n) pleasure.
- нейлон nylon; synonym (n) polyamide.

  НЕЙЛОНОВИЙ nylon; synonym (n) polyamide.

  НЕЙМОВІРНИЙ 1. incredible; synonyms (adj)
  astonishing, improbable, inconceivable, extraordinary, fabulous, implausible, marvelous, unbelievable, fantastic, preposterous, unlikely, wonderful, absurd, amazing, bizarre; antonym (adj) ordinary, 2. impossible; synonyms (adj) insufferable, unimaginable, hopeless, impracticale, impractical, ridiculous, unthinkable, intolerable, incredible, unacceptable,

- unfeasible, unreasonable, unworkable, unrealistic; *antonyms* (*adj*) possible, achievable, feasible, **3**. fabulous; *synonyms* (*adj*) mythical, fabled, legendary, fab, imaginary, mythological, spectacular, terrific, unreal, brilliant, excellent, fictitious, great, mythic, sensational; *antonym* (*adj*) awful.
- **HEŬTPA.TITET** neutrality; *synonyms* (n) impartiality, indifference, detachment, fairness, independence, objectivity, disinterest, disinterestedness, justice, laissezfaire, peace, balance, distance, evenhandedness, nonalignment; *antonym* (n) bias.
- **нейтральний** neutral; *synonyms* (*adj*) disinterested, impartial, indifferent, dispassionate, impersonal, noncommittal, colorless, detached, fair, inert, objective, unbiased, apathetic, independent, (*n*) neuter; *antonyms* (*adj*) biased, aromatic, colorful.
- **неквапливий** deliberate; *synonyms* (*adj*) careful, calculated, circumspect, slow, thoughtful, conscious, (*v*) consider, cogitate, consult, debate, think, confer, contemplate, ponder, reflect; *antonyms* (*adj*) accidental, chance, unintentional, hasty, ingenuous, involuntary, spontaneous.
- **некоректний** incorrect; *synonyms* (*adj*) improper, false, erroneous, inaccurate, inappropriate, wrong, imprecise, faulty, amiss, bad, fallacious, inexact, mistaken, untrue, error; *antonyms* (*adj*) correct, right.
- **нелегальний** illegal; *synonyms* (*adj*) criminal, forbidden, prohibited, unauthorized, unlawful, illegitimate, illicit, lawless, taboo, wrongful; *antonyms* (*adj*) legal, lawful, honest, legitimate, official.
- HEJIOGOB objection; synonyms (n) dissent, protest, complaint, exception, grievance, gripe, disagreement, outcry, difficulty, disapproval, expostulation, criticism, challenge, disadvantage, drawback.
- HEMUHYUE necessarily; synonyms (adv) inevitably, needs, consequentially, inescapably, indispensably, needfully, essentially, automatically, basically, crucially, deeply, ineluctably, manifestly, needily, needly; antonym (adv) unnecessarily.
- **неминучий 1**. inevitable; *synonyms* (*adj*) certain, ineluctable, unavoidable, inescapable, destined, fatal, fated, irresistible, irrevocable, necessary, obvious, avoidless, predictable, unchangeable; *antonyms* (*adj*) uncertain, evitable, **2**. imminent; *synonyms* (*adj*) impending, close, coming, forthcoming, approaching, future, near, pending, menacing, oncoming, prospective, threatening, upcoming; *antonym* (*adj*) far-off.
- HEMUHY-HICTL 1. destiny; synonyms (n) fate, chance, fortune, kismet, luck, destination, lot, portion, weird, accident, circumstances, (v) doom, 2. necessity; synonyms (n) demand, need, lack, essential, exigency, compulsion, emergency, constraint, distress, indigence, must, necessary, obligation, requirement, want; antonym (n) option.
- **НЕМІЦНИЙ** rotten; *synonyms* (*adj*) bad, foul, poor, fetid, lousy, musty, off, putrid, ill, shabby, corrupt, crappy, decomposed, (v) decayed, rancid; *antonym* (*adj*) fresh.
- **немовля** baby; *synonyms* (*n*) babe, child, darling, young, (*v*) coddle, indulge, pamper, cosset, mollycoddle, spoil,

- (adj) infant, miniature, small, babyish, dear; antonym (adj) giant.
- неможливий impossible; synonyms (adj) insufferable, unimaginable, hopeless, impracticable, impractical, inconceivable, unbelievable, unlikely, ridiculous, unthinkable, intolerable, implausible, incredible, unacceptable, unfeasible; antonyms (adj) possible, achievable, feasible.
- **HEMOЖЛИВІСТЬ** inability; *synonyms* (n) disability, disqualification, impotence, incapacity, incompetence, insufficiency, feebleness, helplessness, impotency, inadequacy, powerlessness, unfitness, weakness; *antonyms* (n) ability, capability, power.
- **НЕМОЛОДИЙ** old (старий); *synonyms* (*adj*) antiquated, obsolete, ancient, former, aged, antique, elderly, experienced, outdated, veteran, archaic, decrepit, hoary, mature, past; *antonyms* (*adj*) new, young, modern, fresh, latest, novel, original, youthful.
- ненавидіти hate; *synonyms* (*v*) abhor, detest, abominate, loathe, despise, scorn, (*n*) dislike, enmity, abhorrence, animosity, detestation, hatred, abomination, antipathy, aversion; *antonyms* (*v*) love, like, adore.
- HEHABUCTЬ 1. hate; synonyms (v) abhor, detest, abominate, loathe, despise, scorn, (n) dislike, enmity, abhorrence, animosity, detestation, hatred, abomination, antipathy, aversion; antonyms (v) love, like, adore, 2. hatred; synonyms (n) disgust, grudge, anger, antagonism, hostility, odium, rancor, resentment, execration, distaste, loathing, malice, repugnance, revulsion, (v) hate; antonyms (n) adoration, liking.
- **ненормальний** abnormal; *synonyms* (*adj*) aberrant, anomalous, atypical, irregular, monstrous, odd, perverted, strange, uncommon, unnatural, unusual, perverse, improper, preternatural, grotesque; *antonyms* (*adj*) normal, typical, usual.
- HEOFA 4HO hastily; synonyms (adv) fast, hurriedly, precipitately, promptly, rapidly, helter-skelter, carelessly, impetuously, imprudently, quickly, rashly, speedily, suddenly, thoughtlessly, (adj) headlong; antonyms (adv) slowly, carefully.
- HEOGEPEЖНИЙ careless; synonyms (adj)
  inconsiderate, cursory, forgetful, haphazard, inattentive,
  insouciant, reckless, hasty, imprudent, inadvertent,
  incautious, lax, listless, (v) heedless, (adv) thoughtless;
  antonyms (adj) careful, cautious, prudent, attentive,
  diligent, meticulous, thorough, thoughtful, guarded,
  methodical, strict, wary.
- **HEOБІЗНАНИЙ** unfamiliar; *synonyms* (*adj*) strange, new, unaccustomed, unacquainted, uncommon, foreign, mysterious, novel, unidentified, inexperienced, unknown, unused, unusual, unexplored; *antonyms* (*adj*) familiar, recognizable.
- HEOБМЕЖЕНИЙ 1. absolute; synonyms (adj) downright, peremptory, total, unconditional, categorical, full, real, unqualified, utter, actual, arbitrary, authoritative, certain, complete, (n) positive; antonyms (adj) partial, qualified, 2. unlimited; synonyms (adj) boundless, unbounded, endless, immeasurable, limitless, absolute, indefinite, infinite, measureless, illimitable, interminable, unrestricted, immense, prodigious, unconfined; antonyms (adj) limited, restricted.

- необов'язковий optional; synonyms (adj) discretionary, arbitrary, voluntary, nonobligatory, unrestricted, additional, supplementary, external, extracurricular, extramural, unnecessary, available, discretional, flexible, noncompulsory; antonyms (adj) obligatory, compulsory, required, essential, necessary, mandatory.
- **необроблений 1**. raw; synonyms (adj) crude, fresh, immature, bleak, coarse, cutting, green, piercing, sore, cold, biting, chilly, inclement, inexperienced, naked; antonyms (adi) refined, cooked, 2, waste: synonyms (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; antonyms (v) conserve, save, 3. coarse; synonyms (adj) barbarous, boorish, brutal, gross, rough, vulgar, bawdy, blunt, broad, common, earthy, harsh, rude, uncivilized, brutish; antonyms (adj) smooth, sophisticated, 4. crude; synonyms (adj) clumsy, raw, primitive, uncouth, barbarian, abrupt, churlish, impolite, indecent, natural, unprocessed, unrefined, gaudy, tasteless, basic, 5. rough; synonyms (adj) hard, cruel, grating, hoarse, jagged, approximate, gruff, indelicate, rocky, uneven, robust, abrasive, austere, (n) boisterous, draft; antonyms (adj) gentle, polished, precise, silky, soft, even, exact. glossy, pleasant.
- необхідний 1. necessary; synonyms (adj) essential, compulsory, important, inevitable, basic, mandatory, fundamental, imperative, indispensable, main, obligatory, (n) requisite, necessity, demand, need; antonyms (adj) unnecessary, optional, surplus, needless, unjustified, 2. required; synonyms (adj) necessary, needed, needful, prerequisite, bound, desired, binding, wanted, vital; antonyms (adj) free, undesirable.
- HEOEXIAHICTЬ 1. want; synonyms (ν) need, desire, (n) lack, poverty, wish, deficiency, deprivation, famine, absence, dearth, demand, destitution, indigence, necessity, penury; antonyms (ν) dislike, hate, 2. necessity; synonyms (n) essential, exigency, compulsion, emergency, constraint, distress, must, necessary, obligation, requirement, want, occasion, needfulness, pinch, (ν) use; antonym (n) option.
- **НЕОДМІННИЙ** bound; *synonyms* (v) leap, border, bounce, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, (n) spring, jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, hop; *antonym* (adi) free.
- Heoдмінно 1. certainly; synonyms (adv) assuredly, surely, necessarily, definitely, really, sure, truly, inevitably, absolutely, clearly, exactly, indeed, indubitably, positively, (int) yes; antonyms (adv) doubtfully, questionably, 2. necessarily; synonyms (adv) needs, consequentially, inescapably, indispensably, needfully, essentially, automatically, basically, crucially, deeply, ineluctably, manifestly, needly, primarily; antonym (adv) unnecessarily.
- **HEOДHOЗНАЧНИЙ** ambiguous; *synonyms* (*adj*) equivocal, indistinct, indeterminate, uncertain, evasive, slippery, amphibolous, confused, cryptic, doubtful, dubious, enigmatic, imprecise, indefinite, (*v*) vague; *antonyms* (*adj*) clear, definite, unambiguous, unequivocal.

- **НЕОДНОЗНАЧНІСТЬ** ambiguity; *synonyms* (n) equivocation, doubt, uncertainty, unclearness, equivocalness, haziness, hesitation, obscurity, vagueness, loophole; *antonyms* (n) clearness, precision, unambiguity.
- **неодружений 1.** unmarried; *synonyms* (*adj*) single, unwedded, sole, alone, individual, separate; *antonyms* (*adj*) married, attached, marital, **2.** single; *synonyms* (*adj*) only, celibate, one, odd, particular, distinct, isolated, lone, lonely, simple, solitary, exclusive, several, common, discrete; *antonyms* (*adj*) double, multiple.
- **HEOПЛАЧУВАНИЙ** honorary; *synonyms* (*adj*) complimentary, unpaid, voluntary, unbought, honorarium, nominal, (*adv*) amateur.
- **HEOCBIЧЕНИЙ** ignorant; *synonyms* (*adj*) unconscious, illiterate, rude, uneducated, unwitting, blind, dull, innocent, naive, unaware, uninformed, unlearned, barbarous, crude, shallow; *antonyms* (*adj*) knowledgeable, conscious.
- **HEOCBIЧEHICTЬ** ignorance; *synonyms* (n) darkness, illiteracy, nescience, folly, innocence, unwisdom, denseness, stupidity, obtuseness, unawareness, unenlightenment, night, unacquaintance, adversity, agnosticism; *antonyms* (n) knowledge, intelligence.
- **неосяжний** immense; *synonyms* (*adj*) huge, vast, colossal, enormous, gigantic, great, immeasurable, big, boundless, giant, infinite, large, endless, extensive, extreme; *antonyms* (*adj*) small, tiny.
- **неофіційний** unofficial; *synonyms* (*adj*) informal, private, illegal, irregular, unconfirmed, confidential, secret, unauthorized, unlawful, unproven, unsubstantiated, unsupervised, unverified, hearsay, illicit; *antonyms* (*adj*) credited, official, accredited.
- **HEOXAŬHICTЬ** negligence; *synonyms* (*n*) neglect, carelessness, disregard, inattention, indifference, heedlessness, neglectfulness, inattentiveness, recklessness; *antonym* (*n*) attention.
- **Heoxoue** reluctantly; *synonyms* (*adv*) unwillingly, aversely, backwardly, gingerly, hard, ill, loathly, perversely, bitterly, diffidently, feebly, lackadaisically, resentfully, slowly, stingily; *antonym* (*adv*) willingly.
- **HEOXOЧИЙ 1.** unwilling; *synonyms* (*adj*) reluctant, involuntary, disinclined, loath, averse, recalcitrant, backward, loth, adverse, forced; *antonyms* (*adj*) willing, inclined, **2.** reluctant; *synonyms* (*adj*) unwilling, hesitant, indisposed, diffident, shy, chary, slow, tardy, compulsory; *antonym* (*adj*) eager.
- **неоціненний** invaluable; *synonyms* (*adj*) priceless, incalculable, inestimable, valuable, costly, precious.
- **непарний** odd; *synonyms* (*adj*) grotesque, exceptional, funny, abnormal, curious, droll, eccentric, extraordinary, singular, strange, chance, novel, anomalous, bizarre, fantastic; *antonyms* (*adj*) normal, ordinary, even, typical.
- **НЕПЕРЕБОРНИЙ** overwhelming; *synonyms* (*adj*) overpowering, devastating, irresistible, insurmountable, crushing, monumental, amazing, astounding, tremendous, awesome, breathtaking, consuming, formidable, impossible, intense; *antonym* (*adj*) imperceptible.

- **НЕПЕРЕДБАЧЕНИЙ** unexpected; *synonyms* (*adj*) abrupt, sudden, surprising, casual, unanticipated, unforeseen, unpredicted, accidental, strange, abnormal, astonishing, curious, forced, startling, (*n*) surprise; *antonyms* (*adj*) expected, gradual.
- **НЕПЕРЕДБАЧЕНО** unexpectedly; *synonyms* (*adv*) accidentally, suddenly, abruptly, unawares, casually, surprisingly, circumstantially, incidentally, pop.
- **НЕПЕРЕКОНЛИВИЙ** weak; *synonyms* (adj) feeble, frail, faint, flat, flimsy, fragile, thin, watery, light, ailing, cowardly, delicate, diluted, exhausted, inadequate; *antonyms* (adj) strong, brave, concentrated, firm, safe, compelling, determined, effective, forceful, healthy, intense, powerful, resolute, robust, sturdy.
- HEIIEPEKOHJUBICTЬ weakness; synonyms (n) debility, defect, failing, fault, deficiency, feebleness, fragility, imperfection, flaw, frailty, inadequacy, blemish, predilection, (adj) infirmity, foible; antonyms (n) strength, power, dislike, advantage, brightness, determination, intensity, supremacy.
- **непідробний** real; *synonyms* (*adj*) genuine, material, physical, true, concrete, literal, natural, positive, pure, native, right, good, absolute, (*n*) authentic, (*v*) actual; *antonyms* (*adj*) unreal, imaginary, apparent, artificial, fake, bogus, deceptive, false, fantasy, imitation, insubstantial, mock, nominal, (*v*) pretend.
- HEПОВНИЙ 1. incomplete; synonyms (adj) defective, deficient, faulty, imperfect, inadequate, halfway, lacking, short, unfinished, half, insufficient, fragmentary, sketchy, scarce, (n) rough; antonyms (adj) complete, finished, whole, 2. partial; synonyms (adj) incomplete, unfair, sectional, inequitable, biased, part, unequal, partisan, prejudiced, unjust, disparate, fond, (v) party; antonyms (adj) impartial, total, absolute, comprehensive, unbiased, 3. short; synonyms (adj) brief, concise, brusque, close, curt, sharp, compendious, laconic, abrupt, diminutive, pithy, poor, scanty, small, blunt; antonyms (adj) long, tall, high, lengthy.
- HETIOBHOJITHIЙ 1. infant; synonyms (n) baby, babe, child, minor, nursling, kid, toddler, (adj) juvenile, young, 2. minor; synonyms (adj) little, inferior, insignificant, junior, lesser, lower, small, inconsequential, less, marginal, negligible, petty, secondary, slight, subordinate; antonyms (adj) major, important, significant, basic, chief, fundamental, leading, main, overriding, superseding, serious, considerable, extensive, greater, senior.
- непокоїти 1. disturb; synonyms (v) agitate, disconcert, disorder, disquiet, distract, distress, perturb, trouble, annoy, bother, commove, concern, derange, disarrange, discompose; antonyms (v) arrange, calm, please, smooth, soothe, 2. bother; synonyms (v) torment, vex, worry, afflict, aggravate, harass, irk, irritate, (n) fuss, plague, bore, hassle, pain, ado, annoyance; antonyms (v) delight, (n) pleasure, 3. trouble; synonyms (n) anxiety, difficulty, care, hardship, load, misfortune, problem, grief, disturbance, (v) inconvenience, burden, disturb, confuse, discommode, (adi) affliction.
- **НЕПОМІТНИЙ** obscure; *synonyms* (*adj*) cloudy, dim, dark, gloomy, ambiguous, concealed, darken, hidden, incomprehensible, muddy, mysterious, clandestine, (v)

- hide, blur, cloud; *antonyms* (*adj*) clear, noticeable, simple, obvious, distinct, mainstream, (*v*) clarify.
- **HEΠOMITHO** secretly; *synonyms* (*adv*) covertly, privately, quietly, confidentially, furtively, darkly, silently, slyly, stealthily, surreptitiously; *antonym* (*adv*) openly.
- **непопулярний** unpopular; *synonyms* (*adj*) unwelcome, undesirable, detested, ostracized, unattractive, abominable, companionless, detestable, disagreeable, disgusting, forbidding, hateful, invidious, loathsome, (*v*) unacceptable; *antonyms* (*adj*) popular, well-liked.
- **HEПOPO3УМІННЯ** mistake (помилка); *synonyms* (n) blunder, fault, defect, error, failure, misapprehension, misconception, demerit, inaccuracy, (v) err, misapprehend, slip, confuse, misjudge, misunderstand.
- **НЕПОРОЧНИЙ** pure; *synonyms* (*adj*) just, absolute, genuine, natural, artless, clean, clear, faultless, fresh, good, guileless, immaculate, innocent, mere, (*n*) chaste; *antonyms* (*adj*) impure, contaminated, diluted, dishonored, tainted, wicked.
- **HEΠΟΡΟЧΗΙСΤЬ** purity; *synonyms* (n) innocence, holiness, cleanness, clearness, honor, virtue, perfection, chastity, pureness, sanctity, elegance, integrity, blamelessness, clarity, simplicity; *antonyms* (n) coarseness, guilt.
- **НЕПОРУШНИЙ** eternal; synonyms (adj) constant, endless, perpetual, ceaseless, continual, everlasting, lasting, aeonian, boundless, deathless, enduring, immortal, unending, ageless, durable; antonyms (adj) temporary, mortal, short-lived, finite.
- **непослідовний** inconsistent; *synonyms* (*adj*) incongruous, incoherent, incompatible, contrary, absurd, conflicting, inconsequent, discordant, discrepant, erratic, illogical, irreconcilable, abhorrent, changeable, (*n*) contradictory; *antonyms* (*adj*) consistent, constant, reliable
- HEПОСТІЙНИЙ 1. volatile; synonyms (adj) changeable, erratic, frivolous, unstable, mercurial, giddy, capricious, flighty, variable, inconstant, excitable, unsteady, airy, light, (v) fickle; antonym (adj) stable, 2. variable; synonyms (adj) fitful, mutable, uncertain, unsettled, fluctuating, inconsistent, shifting, variant, versatile, volatile, adaptable, immethodical, irregular, uneven, wavering; antonyms (adj) constant, fixed, invariable, regular, set, smooth, 3. unstable; synonyms (adj) precarious, insecure, shaky, unsound, fluid, unpredictable, irresolute, unreliable, changeful, rickety, unbalanced, wobbly, neurotic, perilous, (v) perishable; antonym (adj) steady, 4. shifting; synonyms (adj) moving, changing, varying, (n) shift, change, movement.
- HEПОСТІЙНІСТЬ instability; synonyms (n) fickleness, fluctuation, flightiness, unreliability, flux, changeability, inconstancy, unbalance, unrest, unstableness, vacillation, volatility, disorder, imbalance, (adj) fugacity; antonyms (n) stability, calm.
- **непотрібний** 1. needless; *synonyms* (*adj*) gratuitous, unnecessary, dispensable, excessive, meaningless, pointless, preventable, wanton, (*v*) superfluous; *antonym* (*adj*) necessary, 2. unnecessary, *synonyms* (*adj*) redundant, needless, surplus, excess, spare, undue, useless, extra. unneeded: *antonym* (*adj*) reasonable, 3.

- Waste; *synonyms* (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; *antonyms* (v) conserve, save.
- HEHOXUTHUЙ 1. rocky; synonyms (adj) hard, unstable, rough, shaky, craggy, flinty, stony, wobbly, unsteady, harsh, insecure, obdurate, rugged, bouldered, bouldery, 2. stable; synonyms (adj) firm, permanent, reliable, constant, durable, fast, fixed, lasting, secure, stationary, enduring, persistent, solid, sound, steady; antonyms (adj) dangerous, precarious, rickety, volatile.
- **HEHOXUTHO** firmly; *synonyms* (*adv*) firm, hard, resolutely, securely, solidly, steadfastly, strongly, unwaveringly, decidedly, closely, decisively, persistently, positively, rigidly, (*adj*) fast; *antonyms* (*adv*) loosely, weakly, halfheartedly, leniently, uncertainly.
- непошкоджений intact; synonyms (adj) complete, full, entire, whole, integral, perfect, unbroken, undamaged, uninjured, untouched, sound, inviolate, pure, safe, total; antonym (adj) broken.
- HEΠΡΑΒ. 1. lying; synonyms (adj) deceitful, false, deceptive, mendacious, untrue, misleading, fraudulent, recumbent, (n) fabrication, falsehood, lie, deceit, dishonesty, duplicity, prevarication; antonyms (adj) honest, (n) honesty, 2. lie; synonyms (ν) consist, repose, falsify, belong, couch, dwell, (n) falsity, fib, fiction, rest, untruth, bluff; counterfeit, deception, fable; antonyms (ν) stand, (n) truth.
- **неправдивий** false; *synonyms* (*adj*) bastard, counterfeit, untrue, deceitful, dishonest, erroneous, artificial, assumed, deceptive, disloyal, faithless, fake, fictitious, sham, ersatz; *antonyms* (*adj*) true, real, correct, factual, faithful, genuine, natural, truthful, honest, valid.
- неправдоподібний 1. unlikely; synonyms (adj) improbable, incredible, implausible, unbelievable, doubtful, dubious, fantastic, marvelous, remote, unthinkable, fishy, outside, slight, unconvincing; antonyms (adj) likely, probable, plausible, possible, 2. incredible; synonyms (adj) astonishing, inconceivable, extraordinary, fabulous, preposterous, unlikely, wonderful, absurd, amazing, bizarre, great, impossible, magnificent, miraculous, prodigious; antonym (adj) ordinary.
- **неправильний 1**. wrong; synonyms (adj) harm, evil, false, ill, improper, bad, inappropriate, incorrect, abuse, criminal, (n) damage, injure, injury, injustice, crime; antonyms (adj) correct, good, proper, honest, lawabiding, (adv) correctly, (v) right, (n) justice, 2. faulty; synonyms (adj) erroneous, deficient, defective, vicious, broken, inaccurate, wrong, damaged, imperfect, poor, amiss, tainted, blamable, flawed, inadequate; antonyms (adj) perfect, flawless, 3. incorrect; synonyms (adj) imprecise, faulty, fallacious, inexact, mistaken, untrue, error, unfit, unfitting, unsound, unsuitable, inconclusive, 4. unfair; synonyms (adj) partial, dishonest, unjust, foul, inequitable, deceitful, dishonorable, fraudulent, undeserved, wrongful, underhand, unsporting, mean, crooked, dirty; antonyms (adj) fair, just, reasonable, balanced, rightful.
- **НЕПРАЦЮЮЧИЙ** idle; *synonyms* (*adj*) inactive, indolent, lazy, free, baseless, frivolous, fruitless.

- groundless, unfounded, empty, disengaged, flimsy, barren, dead, futile; *antonyms* (*adj*) busy, active, employed, (v) change.
- непридатний 1. useless; synonyms (adj) futile, pointless, unnecessary, needless, abortive, fruitless, hopeless, worthless, idle, barren, superfluous, bootless, incompetent, ineffective, ineffectual; antonyms (adj) useful, helpful, competent, effective, convenient, necessary, valuable, 2. unsuitable; synonyms (adj) inappropriate, improper, inapplicable, incorrect, unfit, inapt, inopportune, unbecoming, undesirable, wrong, inconvenient, incompatible, indecorous, unseasonable, ineligible; antonyms (adj) suitable, appropriate, applicable, proper.
- неприємний 1. unpleasant; synonyms (adj) disagreeable, harsh, nasty, obnoxious, offensive, ugly, sour, awkward, bad, forbidding, repulsive, hard, rude, abhorrent, bitter; antonyms (adj) pleasant, agreeable, delightful, attractive, comfortable, enjoyable, nice, wonderful, charming, 2. nasty; synonyms (adj) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, awful, mean, abominable, coarse, distasteful, evil, hurtful, raw, unpleasant, vile; antonyms (adj) kind, charitable, lovely, 3. ugly; synonyms (adj) frightful, gruesome, hideous, homely, surly, atrocious, deformed, despicable, grotesque, horrible, monstrous, ominous, plain, shocking, sinister; antonyms (adj) beautiful, goodlooking, flowing, ornamental, 4. painful; synonyms (adj) difficult, sore, afflictive, grievous, harrowing, sharp, aching, arduous, dolorous, excruciating, irritating, laborious, poignant, intolerable, (v) distressing; antonyms (adj) painless, content.
- HEIIPUEMHICT5 1. headache; synonyms (n) cephalalgia, nuisance, pain, bother, vexation, aching, bore, business, concern, pest, worry, (v) gripe, twinge, 2. mess; synonyms (n) clutter, jumble, muddle, confusion, difficulty, disorder, hodgepodge, jam, scrape, bedlam, chaos, dilemma, dirt, (v) botch, soil; antonym (n) order, 3. trouble; synonyms (n) distress, anxiety, fuss, torment, care, harass, (v) inconvenience, annoy, disquiet, afflict, agitate, burden, distract, disturb, (adj) affliction; antonyms (v) calm, please, 4. nuisance; synonyms (n) annoyance, harassment, hassle, irritation, mischief, botheration, disturbance, plague, trouble, drawback, bane, bind, hindrance, menace, (adj) grievance; antonym (n) pleasure.
- неприйнятний unacceptable; synonyms (adj)
  impossible, insufferable, objectionable, unsatisfactory,
  inadmissible, disagreeable, distasteful, ineligible,
  intolerable, offensive, thankless, unbearable, unpleasant,
  unsuitable; antonyms (adj) acceptable, satisfactory,
  allowable, admissible, permissible, suitable, valid.
- **НЕПРИКРАШЕНИЙ** bald (лисий); *synonyms* (*adj*) bare, hairless, simple, austere, meager, threadbare, raw, barefaced, dry, forthright, mere, naked, nude, plain, stark; *antonym* (*adj*) hairy.
- **НЕПРИКРИТИЙ** bald (лисий); *synonyms* (*adj*) bare, hairless, simple, austere, meager, threadbare, raw, barefaced, dry, forthright, mere, naked, nude, plain, stark; *antonym* (*adj*) hairy.

- HEПРИСТОЙНИЙ 1. coarse; synonyms (adj) barbarous, boorish, brutal, crude, gross, rough, vulgar, bawdy, blunt, broad, common, earthy, harsh, rude, uncivilized; antonyms (adj) refined, smooth, sophisticated, 2. nasty; synonyms (adj) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, awful, mean, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, distasteful, evil, hurtful, obnoxious, raw; antonyms (adj) agreeable, kind, pleasant, nice, charitable, lovely.
- **непритомний** unconscious; *synonyms* (adj) involuntary, unaware, ignorant, subconscious, unwitting, oblivious, automatic, insensible, instinctive, senseless, unintentional, spontaneous, innocent, unknowing, unacquainted; *antonyms* (adj) conscious, awake, deliberate
- Heпритомність faint; synonyms (adj) collapse, dim, dizzy, feeble, indistinct, weak, dull, gentle, soft, vague, delicate, distant, (v) languish, swoon, droop; antonyms (adj) distinct, strong, clear, obvious, considerable, loud, pungent.
- **HEПРОНИКНИЙ** proof; *synonyms* (n) confirmation, demonstration, probation, argument, authentication, evidence, sign, substantiation, validation, verification, experiment, indication, essay, criterion, establishment.
- непрямий 1. indirect; synonyms (adj) circuitous, collateral, incidental, crooked, devious, oblique, roundabout, secondary, side, tortuous, winding, disingenuous, obscure, backhanded, implied; antonyms (adj) direct, overt, 2. sideways; synonyms (adv) obliquely, laterally, sidelong, sideway, sidewise, (adj) crabwise, crosswise, aslant, indirect, slanting; antonym (adj) level.
- **нераціональний** irrational; *synonyms* (*adj*) foolish, absurd, inconsistent, silly, blind, illogical, preposterous, senseless, unreasonable, imprudent, unsound, insane, thoughtless, nonsensical, ridiculous; *antonyms* (*adj*) rational, logical.
- **HepB** nerve; *synonyms* (*n*) audacity, cheek, impertinence, boldness, brass, courage, daring, face, fortitude, heart, impudence, mettle, prowess, assurance, backbone; *antonym* (*n*) cowardice.
- **нервовий** nervous; *synonyms* (*adj*) anxious, excitable, tense, cowardly, afraid, apprehensive, fearful, shy, uneasy, firm, edgy, fidgety, neurotic, (*adv*) excited, agitated; *antonyms* (*adj*) calm, brave, relaxed.
- **HepBoBo** nervously; *synonyms* (*adv*) tensely, anxiously, timorously, doubtfully, eagerly, excitedly, hesitantly, indecisively, neurotically, skeptically, suspiciously, tentatively, uneasily, warily, worriedly; *antonyms* (*adv*) calmly, confidently.
- **НЕРЕАЛЬНИЙ** imaginary; *synonyms* (*adj*) fanciful, fictitious, false, ideal, illusory, mythical, unreal, hypothetical, chimerical, fantastic, fictional, notional, visionary, whimsical, delusive; *antonyms* (*adj*) real, palpable.
- **нерегулярний 1**. irregular; *synonyms* (*adj*) abnormal, atypical, anomalous, broken, eccentric, erratic, changeable, desultory, deviant, disorderly, guerilla, sporadic, strange, unequal, (*n*) guerilla; *antonyms* (*adj*) regular, constant, even, normal, smooth, symmetrical, compact, cyclic, equal, steady, **2**. casual; *synonyms*

- (adj) accidental, adventitious, careless, chance, irregular, nonchalant, occasional, coincidental, contingent, cursory, easy, fortuitous, haphazard, insouciant, lax; antonyms (adj) deliberate, formal, thorough.
- нерівний 1. uneven; synonyms (adj) rough, unequal, irregular, jagged, erratic, patchy, rugged, spotty, disproportionate, ragged, craggy, crooked, unbalanced, (v) broken, (n) harsh; antonyms (adj) even, smooth, straight, equal, symmetrical, 2. ragged; synonyms (adj) seedy, threadbare, worn, hoarse, scruffy, torn, dilapidated, shaggy, tattered, unkempt, untidy, (v) bald, (n) shabby; antonyms (adj) pristine, smart, elegant, 3. rough; synonyms (adj) coarse, hard, raw, crude, cruel, grating, gross, approximate, gruff, inclement, indelicate, rocky, uneven, (n) boisterous, draft; antonyms (adj) gentle, polished, precise, refined, silky, soft, sophisticated, exact, glossy, pleasant.
- **Hepibhictb 1.** odds; *synonyms* (n) advantage, chance, likelihood, possibility, probability, likeliness, chances, prospect, handicap, superiority, edge, (v) difference, dissension, misunderstanding, variance, **2.** inequality; *synonyms* (n) disparity, disproportion, dissimilitude, injustice, variation, discrepancy, imbalance, inequity, unevenness, unfairness, (adj) odds; *antonyms* (n) equality, justice, parity, **3.** prominence; *synonyms* (n) eminence, hump, importance, protuberance, height, bulge, consequence, distinction, projection, celebrity, fame, moment, bump, extrusion, gibbosity; *antonym* (n) obscurity.
- **HEPIBHO** roughly; *synonyms* (*adv*) coarsely, almost, around, rough, harshly, some, generally, hardly, violently, fiercely, (*prep*) about, approximately, circa, (*adj*) nearly; *antonyms* (*adv*) gently, softly, smoothly.
- HEPIIIIУЧИЙ 1. weak; synonyms (adj) feeble, frail, faint, flat, flimsy, fragile, thin, watery, light, ailing, cowardly, delicate, diluted, exhausted, inadequate; antonyms (adj) strong, brave, concentrated, firm, safe, compelling, determined, effective, forceful, healthy, intense, powerful, resolute, robust, sturdy, 2. shy; synonyms (adj) diffident, fearful, timid, abashed, reserved, ashamed, coy, modest, nervous, reticent, self-conscious, backward, (v) fling, cast, (n) throw; antonyms (adj) brash, bold, confident, demonstrative, forward, outgoing.
- **нерішучість** hesitation; *synonyms* (n) hesitance, faltering, delay, hesitate, diffidence, hesitancy, indecision, misgiving, pause, qualm, reluctance, (v) doubt, falter, fear, hesitating; *antonyms* (n) certainty, persuasiveness.
- нерозсудливий 1. unreasonable; synonyms (adj) foolish, absurd, excessive, extravagant, immoderate, undue, preposterous, exorbitant, illogical, inordinate, irrational, ridiculous, senseless, silly, unconscionable; antonyms (adj) reasonable, good-natured, 2. reckless; synonyms (adj) heedless, careless, foolhardy, rash, hasty, imprudent, incautious, wanton, daring, brash, desperate, precipitate, audacious, irresponsible, madcap; antonyms (adj) careful, cautious, prudent, sensible, wise.
- **HEPO3УМНИЙ** 1. unreasonable; *synonyms* (*adj*) foolish, absurd, excessive, extravagant, immoderate, undue, preposterous, exorbitant, illogical, inordinate,

- irrational, ridiculous, senseless, silly, unconscionable; *antonyms* (*adj*) reasonable, good-natured, **2**. silly; *synonyms* (*adj*) childish, fatuous, fool, frivolous, idiotic, unreasonable, crazy, daft, dizzy, ludicrous, nonsensical, sappy, simple, unwise, (*n*) imbecile; *antonyms* (*adj*) sensible, mature, wise.
- HEPYXOMИЙ 1. fixed; synonyms (adj) determined, definite, steady, constant, durable, certain, decided, determinate, established, fast, fastened, intent, permanent, (v) stable, (adv) firm; antonyms (adj) flexible, adaptable, adjustable, changeable, movable, separate, variable, compliant, loose, moveable, portable, removable, temporary, 2. still; synonyms (adv) however, but, nevertheless, (adj) calm, pacify, peaceful, silence, quiescent, serene, silent, (n) hush, (v) quiet, assuage, compose, lull; antonyms (adj) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, (n) noisy.
- **HEPYXOMICT6** rest; *synonyms* (n) remnant, repose, balance, pause, recess, relaxation, residue, leisure, break, (v) nap, remain, sleep, ease, lie, (adj) remainder; *antonym* (v) work.
- HECAMOBUTUM outrageous; synonyms (adj) exorbitant, inordinate, atrocious, furious, monstrous, ridiculous, offensive, gross, excessive, extravagant, absurd, awful, disgusting, dreadful, extortionate; antonyms (adj) sensible, acceptable.
- HECBIДОМИЙ unconscious; synonyms (adj) involuntary, unaware, ignorant, subconscious, unwitting, oblivious, automatic, insensible, instinctive, senseless, unintentional, spontaneous, innocent, unknowing, unacquainted; antonyms (adj) conscious, awake, deliberate.
- **нескінченний 1**. endless; *synonyms* (*adj*) constant, continual, ceaseless, continuous, interminable, perpetual, eternal, everlasting, incessant, uninterrupted, boundless, countless, dateless, infinite, limitless; *antonyms* (*adj*) finite, temporary, intermittent, limited, restricted, **2**. infinite; *synonyms* (*adj*) absolute, endless, immense, incalculable, immeasurable, innumerable, enormous, illimitable, indefinite, multitudinous, myriad, unending, unfathomable, unlimited, vast.
- HECKJAДНИЙ simple; synonyms (adj) plain, homely, pure, elementary, humble, innocent, mere, natural, rustic, honest, bare, chaste, childish, (v) clear, downright; antonyms (adj) complex, complicated, compound, elaborate, difficult, multiple, obscure, ornate, confused, confusing, cunning, multifaceted, problematical, sophisticated.
- **неслухняний** naughty; *synonyms* (*adj*) bad, blue, impish, mischievous, improper, disobedient, insubordinate, wicked, evil, lewd, dark, defiant, racy, rebellious, risque; *antonyms* (*adj*) well-behaved, good.
- **НЕСПЛАЧЕНИЙ** outstanding; synonyms (adj) eminent, due, conspicuous, great, owing, famous, distinguished, excellent, exceptional, notable, noteworthy, prominent, unpaid, major, brilliant; antonyms (adj) ordinary, paid, inferior.
- **НЕСПОДІВАНИЙ** sudden; *synonyms* (*adj*) abrupt, hasty, precipitous, quick, rash, unexpected, steep, dramatic, headlong, immediate, precipitate, sharp, swift,

- unforeseen, impulsive; *antonyms* (adj) gradual, considered.
- HECΠΟДΙΒΑΗΚΑ 1. accident; synonyms (n) chance, casualty, coincidence, crash, fortune, circumstance, contingency, event, fortuity, hap, hazard, incident, luck, smash, catastrophe, 2. surprise; synonyms (n) fright, amazement, astonishment, surprisal, wonder, admiration, (ν) astound, alarm, amaze, astonish, shock, startle, jolt, stun, catch
- **HECΠΟДΙΒΑΗΟ** suddenly; *synonyms* (*adv*) abruptly, short, sudden, presto, dead, hastily, rapidly, fast, instantly, sharply, unawares, precipitously, (*adj*) quickly, immediately, instanter; *antonyms* (*adv*) gradually, increasingly, predictably, slowly.
- неспокій 1. trouble; synonyms (n) distress, bother, pain, anxiety, difficulty, (v) inconvenience, annoy, disorder, disquiet, worry, afflict, agitate, burden, distract, disturb; antonyms (v) calm, please, 2. unrest; synonyms (n) turmoil, agitation, ferment, fermentation, revolution, turmult, turbulence, commotion, excitement, chaos, disturbance, restlessness, strife; antonym (n) rest, 3. anxiety (тривога); synonyms (n) alarm, care, fear, solicitude, trouble, anguish, anxiousness, concern, uneasiness, worriment, dismay, misgiving, nervousness, panic, qualm; antonyms (n) calmness, bravery, confidence, 4. disturbance; synonyms (n) brawl, derangement, dislocation, disruption, upset, din, affray, annoyance, confusion, perturbation, rumpus, stir, upheaval, clamor, (v) discomposure.
- неспокійний 1. uneasy; synonyms (adj) uncomfortable, anxious, fidgety, restless, apprehensive, concerned, nervous, awkward, unquiet, fretful, restive, solicitous, agitated, jittery, troubled; antonym (adj) calm, 2. anxious; synonyms (adj) afraid, alarmed, tense, uneasy, distressed, fearful, frightened, keen, thoughtful, thirsty, insecure, jealous, careful, desirous, (v) jumpy; antonyms (adj) relaxed, carefree, confident, rational, unconcerned, undisturbed, untroubled, 3, troubled; synonyms (adi) disturbed, disconcerted, upset, worried, distraught, bothered, perturbed, tumultuous, turbulent, unsettled, vexed, disruptive, doubtful, riotous, unhappy; antonym (adj) composed, 4. restless; synonyms (adj) impatient, feverish, edgy, wakeful, eager, hasty, mercurial, hectic, changeable, discontented, electric, (n) tremulous, coy, diffident, (v) convulsive.
- **несправедливий 1**. unfair; *synonyms* (*adj*) partial, dishonest, unjust, foul, inequitable, deceitful, dishonorable, fraudulent, undeserved, wrongful, underhand, unsporting, mean, crooked, dirty; *antonyms* (*adj*) fair, just, reasonable, balanced, rightful, **2**. Wrong; *synonyms* (*adj*) harm, evil, false, ill, improper, bad, inappropriate, incorrect, abuse, criminal, (*n*) damage, injure, injury, injustice, crime; *antonyms* (*adj*) correct, good, proper, honest, law-abiding, (*adv*) correctly, (*v*) right, (*n*) justice.
- **несправедливість** injustice; *synonyms* (*n*) inequity, iniquity, evil, unfairness, wrong, bigotry, crime, grievance, inequality, oppression, prejudice, wickedness, (*adj*) injury, harm, damage; *antonyms* (*n*) justice, evenhandedness, fairness.

- **НЕСПРАВНИЙ** defective; *synonyms* (*adj*) deficient, bad, faulty, imperfect, broken, incomplete, lacking, unsound, vicious, inaccurate, rotten, erroneous, flawed, inadequate, incorrect; *antonym* (*adj*) perfect.
- HECΠΡИЯТЛИВИЙ 1. contrary; synonyms (adj) opposite, contradictory, adverse, conflicting, reverse, unfavorable, alien, cross, different, disobedient, obstinate, perverse, averse, antagonistic, (adv) counter, 2. adverse; synonyms (adj) contrary, harmful, hostile, untoward, adversary, inimical, negative, repugnant, bad, detrimental, disadvantageous, disastrous, harsh, ill, inauspicious; antonym (adj) favorable, 3. obscure; synonyms (adj) cloudy, dim, dark, gloomy, ambiguous, concealed, darken, hidden, incomprehensible, muddy, mysterious, clandestine, (v) hide, blur, cloud; antonyms (adj) clear, noticeable, simple, obvious, distinct, mainstream, (v) clarify.
- **НЕСПРОМОЖНИЙ** unable; *synonyms* (*adj*) powerless, incapable, incompetent, ineffective, impotent, helpless, ineffectual, inefficient, inadequate, unqualified, unfit, disqualified; *antonyms* (*adj*) able, capable.
- неспроможність 1. disability; synonyms (n) handicap, inability, disablement, disqualification, drawback, impairment, incapacity, disadvantage, damage, deadening, deterioration, deterrent, detriment, illness, trouble, 2. bankruptcy; synonyms (n) failure, insolvency, smash, ruin, indebtedness, recession, closure, depression, poverty, defalcation, default, destituteness, disaster, exhaustion, indigence, 3. inequality; synonyms (n) disparity, difference, disproportion, dissimilitude, injustice, variance, variation, discrepancy, imbalance, inequity, unevenness, unfairness, (adi) odds; antonyms (n) equality, justice, parity.
- **нестабільність** instability; *synonyms* (*n*) fickleness, fluctuation, flightiness, unreliability, flux, changeability, inconstancy, unbalance, unrest, unstableness, vacillation, volatility, disorder, imbalance, (*adj*) fugacity; *antonyms* (*n*) stability, calm.
- **нестатки** hardship; *synonyms* (*n*) adversity, distress, calamity, affliction, grievance, difficulty, trouble, burden, disaster, asperity, deprivation, destitution, misfortune, poverty, suffering; *antonym* (*n*) affluence.
- нестача 1. shortage (недостача); synonyms (n) dearth, defect, deficiency, lack, paucity, deficit, famine, insufficiency, need, poverty, scantiness, scarcity, shortfall, want, deprivation; antonyms (n) abundance, excess, overabundance, surplus, affluence, glut, 2. deficit; synonyms (n) failure, shortage, arrears, absence, 3. defect; synonyms (n) fault, blemish, blot, flaw, shortcoming, failing, imperfection, scar, weakness, deformity, foible, vice, blunder, (v) desert, (adj) infirmity, 4. failure; synonyms (n) bankruptcy, breakdown, decline, debacle, defeat, disappointment, disaster, downfall, error, loser, loss, abortion, default, collapse, (v) decay; antonyms (n) success, achievement, hit, winner,
- **нестерпний** intolerable; *synonyms* (*adj*) insufferable, insupportable, unbearable, painful, obnoxious, deplorable, detestable, inexcusable; *antonyms* (*adj*) bearable. tolerable.

victory, achiever, attainment, capability, growth.

- **нести 1**. carry; *synonyms* (ν) bear, bring, convey, conduct, take, acquit, behave, accept, comport, hold, pack, transport, load, assume, admit, **2**. bear (ведмідь); *synonyms* (ν) carry, abide, stand, afford, allow, apply, brook, digest, endure, produce, suffer, support, teem, tolerate, undergo.
- **НЕСТИГЛИЙ** crude; *synonyms* (*adj*) clumsy, coarse, raw, rough, rude, barbarous, immature, primitive, uncouth, vulgar, barbarian, abrupt, churlish, earthy, gross; *antonyms* (*adj*) refined, sophisticated.
- **HECTIЙКИЙ** unstable; *synonyms* (*adj*) changeable, precarious, insecure, shaky, unsettled, unsound, erratic, fickle, fluid, inconstant, unpredictable, irresolute, unreliable, capricious, changeful; *antonyms* (*adj*) stable, steady, constant.
- HEСТРИМАНИЙ abandoned; synonyms (adj) forlorn, immoral, deserted, empty, profligate, shameless, stranded, wicked, lonely, corrupt, debauched, depraved, derelict, desolate, discarded; antonyms (adj) restrained, inhabited, orderly, overcrowded.
- несумісний 1. incompatible; synonyms (adj) contradictory, conflicting, discordant, discrepant, inappropriate, incongruous, inconsistent, antagonistic, irreconcilable, repugnant, hostile, clashing, unsuitable, unsuited, contrastive; antonyms (adj) compatible, consistent, identical, matching, 2. inconsistent; synonyms (adj) incoherent, incompatible, contrary, absurd, inconsequent, erratic, illogical, abhorrent, changeable, opposite, unstable, ridiculous, unreasonable, dissonant, volatile; antonyms (adj) ironic, opposed, opposing, confounding, divergent, unlike, (n) disagreeing, reverse; antonym (adj) similar.
- **HECYHIЙ** bearing; *synonyms* (*n*) carriage, demeanor, appearance, approach, aspect, attitude, conduct, deportment, direction, manner, respect, air, aim, behavior, comportment.
- **HECXBAJIEHHЯ** objection; *synonyms* (n) dissent, protest, complaint, exception, grievance, gripe, disagreement, outcry, difficulty, disapproval, expostulation, criticism, challenge, disadvantage, drawback.
- несхожий 1. unlike; synonyms (adj) dissimilar, different, diverse, unequal, disparate, distinct, separate, unalike, divergent, heterogeneous; antonyms (adj) similar, like,
  2. different; synonyms (adj) another, assorted, unusual, various, alien, alternative, discrete, foreign, fresh, miscellaneous, new, opposite, several, strange, unlike; antonyms (adj) corresponding, equal, identical, typical.
- **HECXOЖІСТЬ** diversity; *synonyms* (n) variety, dissimilarity, disparity, variation, difference, divergence, assortment, distinction, contrast, inequality, unevenness, change, disagreement, discrepancy, dissimilitude.
- **НЕТВЕРДИЙ** unstable; *synonyms* (*adj*) changeable, precarious, insecure, shaky, unsettled, unsound, erratic, fickle, fluid, inconstant, unpredictable, irresolute, unreliable, capricious, changeful; *antonyms* (*adj*) stable, steady, constant.
- **нетерплячий** 1. impatient; *synonyms* (*adj*) eager, hasty, anxious, petulant, fidgety, keen, edgy, quick, avid, enthusiastic, impetuous, irritable, restive, restless, testy;

- antonyms (adj) patient, enduring, 2. eager; synonyms (adj) desirous, ardent, earnest, agog, acute, ambitious, zealous, industrious, studious, active, burning, craving, excited, fervent, forward; antonyms (adj) indifferent, apathetic, disinterested, unconcerned.
- **НЕТОЧНИЙ 1**. incorrect; *synonyms* (*adj*) improper, false, erroneous, inaccurate, inappropriate, wrong, imprecise, faulty, amiss, bad, fallacious, inexact, mistaken, untrue, error; *antonyms* (*adj*) correct, right, **2**. fast; *synonyms* (*adj*) dissolute, firm, agile, debauched, fixed, hurried, instant, quick, rapid, staunch, brisk, (*adv*) soon, hard, close, (*n*) diet; *antonyms* (*adj*) sluggish, loose, (*adv*) slow, slowly, leisurely, (*v*) gorge, (*n*) binge.
- **HETTO** net; *synonyms* (*adj*) final, last, (*n*) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, (*v*) mesh, clear, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; *antonym* (*v*) gross.
- HETЯМУЩИЙ slow; synonyms (adj) dull, late, easy, sluggish, heavy, dense, dim, gradual, inactive, indolent, lazy, stupid, (v) slack, (adv) behind, behindhand; antonyms (adj) fast, intelligent, rapid, bright, alert, brisk, hasty, prompt, quick, speedy, hurried, observant, rushed, (v) accelerate.
- неуважність absence; synonyms (n) absenteeism, dearth, default, deficiency, lack, want, nonattendance, paucity, scarcity, shortage; antonyms (n) presence, attendance.
- **HEYCHIX** failure; *synonyms* (n) bankruptcy, failing, breakdown, decline, deficiency, debacle, defeat, disappointment, disaster, downfall, error, loser, loss, abortion, default; *antonyms* (n) success, achievement, hit, winner, victory, achiever, attainment, capability, growth.
- **HEYUTEO** ignorance; *synonyms* (*n*) darkness, illiteracy, nescience, folly, innocence, unwisdom, denseness, stupidity, obtuseness, unawareness, unenlightenment, night, unacquaintance, adversity, agnosticism; *antonyms* (*n*) knowledge, intelligence.
- **неушкодженість** safety; *synonyms* (*n*) protection, guard, refuge, security, bingle, safe, asylum, sanctuary, cover, preservation, safeness, shelter, condom, defense, prophylactic; *antonyms* (*n*) danger, hazard.
- **HEΦAXIBEЦЬ** outsider; *synonyms* (n) alien, foreigner, stranger, layman, outlander, newcomer.
- **неформальний** informal; *synonyms* (*adj*) colloquial, familiar, casual, easy, free, cozy, unofficial, chatty, cosy, homely, wanton, comfortable, conversational, everyday, intimate; *antonyms* (*adj*) formal, authorized, official.
- **HEXAŬ** let; synonyms (v) allow, hire, admit, lease, leave, permit, charter, have, rent, grant, authorize, cause, countenance, demise, (n) check; antonyms (v) forbid, prevent.
- **нехтування 1**. neglect; *synonyms* (*n*) disregard, slight, carelessness, delinquency, negligence, omission, mistake, (*v*) fail, forget, ignore, overlook, default, drop, omit, disdain; *antonyms* (*n*) development, surveillance, (*v*) attention, care, complete, do, protect, **2**. slight; *synonyms* (*adj*) flimsy, slender, thin, fragile, delicate, faint, feeble, fine, lean, (*n*) scorn, (*adv*) light, (*v*) insult, neglect, affront, cut; *antonyms* (*adj*) considerable, major, fat, heavy, intense, obvious, severe, thickset, wide.

- **HEXTYBATU** neglect; *synonyms* (n) disregard, slight, carelessness, delinquency, negligence, omission, mistake, (ν) fail, forget, ignore, overlook, default, drop, omit, disdain; *antonyms* (n) development, surveillance, (ν) attention, care, complete, do, protect.
- **НЕЧЕСНИЙ** unfair; *synonyms* (*adj*) partial, dishonest, unjust, foul, inequitable, deceitful, dishonorable, fraudulent, undeserved, wrongful, underhand, unsporting, mean, crooked, dirty; *antonyms* (*adj*) fair, just, reasonable, balanced, rightful.
- **нешкідливий** harmless; *synonyms* (*adj*) innocuous, safe, benign, inoffensive, hurtless, innocent, innoxious, intact, simple, (*n*) silly, foolish; *antonyms* (*adj*) harmful, damaging, destructive, lethal, poisonous, toxic.
- **нещасливий** unhappy; *synonyms* (*adj*) unfortunate, depressed, dismal, gloomy, melancholy, sad, disconsolate, distressed, infelicitous, low, miserable, sorrowful, disappointed, downcast, mournful; *antonyms* (*adj*) happy, cheerful, pleased, satisfied.
- нещасний 1. wretched; synonyms (adj) unfortunate, unhappy, forlorn, pitiful, sad, deplorable, lamentable, low, mean, pathetic, piteous, pitiable, sorry, (v) miserable, poor; antonym (adj) happy, 2. unfortunate; synonyms (adj) inauspicious, bad, disastrous, hapless, inopportune, adverse, calamitous, infelicitous, unlucky, untoward, ill, luckless, ominous, tragic, dismal; antonyms (adj) fortunate, lucky.
- **нещастя** misery; *synonyms* (n) adversity, distress, affliction, agony, anguish, woe, hardship, evil, ill, infelicity, poverty, suffering, calamity, depression, (adj) grief; *antonyms* (n) cheerfulness, ecstasy, happiness, joy, fun, hopefulness.
- **НЕЩОДАВНІЙ** recent; *synonyms* (*adj*) late, modern, new, novel, latest, contemporary, fresh, green, past, current, last, latter, final, immediate, present; *antonym* (*adj*) old.
- **нещодавно 1.** lately; *synonyms* (*adv*) recently, late, freshly, latterly, newly, just, new, (*adj*) anew, afresh, 2. recently; *synonyms* (*adv*) lately, fresh, (*n*) yesterday, 3. newly; *synonym* (*adv*) again.
- HEACKPABUH quiet; synonyms (adj) still, lull, pacify, cool, gentle, motionless, peaceful, (v) appease, moderate, assuage, allay, (n) calm, hush, compose, ease; antonyms (adj) loud, noisy, talkative, vociferous, active, (n) noise.
- неясний 1. vague: svnonvms (adi) indeterminate. indistinct, obscure, ambiguous, faint, indefinite. uncertain, undefined, undetermined, feeble, dim, fuzzy, hazy, (v) loose, equivocal; antonyms (adj) clear, definite, distinct, exact, particular, precise, specific, sure, 2. ambiguous; synonyms (adj) evasive, slippery, amphibolous, confused, cryptic, doubtful, dubious, enigmatic, imprecise, misleading, nebulous, oracular, puzzling, questionable, (v) vague; antonyms (adj) unambiguous, unequivocal, 3. unclear; synonyms (adj) opaque, shadowy, unsure, blurry, murky, blurred, borderline, foggy, illegible, incomprehensible, indecipherable, indecisive, misty, unsettled; antonym (adj) obvious, 4. blind; synonyms (adj) sightless, undiscerning, (v) bedazzle, daze, dazzle, (n) screen, curtain, shutter, awning, drape, trick, veil, camouflage,

- cheat, cloak; *antonym* (*adj*) sighted, **5**. doubtful; *synonyms* (*adj*) debatable, disputable, distrustful, queer, suspicious, tentative, diffident, hesitant, skeptical, undecided, unlikely, suspensive, apocryphal, apprehensive, dubitable; *antonyms* (*adj*) certain, trusting, convinced, reliable, confident, persuaded, provable, **6**. obscure; *synonyms* (*adj*) cloudy, dark, gloomy, concealed, darken, hidden, muddy, mysterious, clandestine, (*v*) hide, blur, cloud, conceal, confuse, cover; *antonyms* (*adj*) noticeable, simple, mainstream, (*v*) clarify
- **HEACHICTL** ambiguity; *synonyms* (n) equivocation, doubt, uncertainty, unclearness, equivocalness, haziness, hesitation, obscurity, vagueness, loophole; *antonyms* (n) clearness, precision, unambiguity.
- нижній 1. lower; synonyms (adj) debase, inferior, (v) degrade, diminish, frown, humble, dip, abase, cut, descend, drop, scowl, disgrace, decrease, (n) depress; antonyms (v) increase, raise, 2. under; synonyms (adv) below, beneath, underneath, downstairs, infra, (adj) lower, down, nether, bottom, low, subject, subordinate, lowest; antonym (prep) over, 3. bottom; synonyms (n) base, basis, backside, bed, behind, foot, footing, back, arse, ass, bum, butt, buttocks, craft, floor; antonyms (n) top, pinnacle, (adj) highest.
- нижче 1. below; synonyms (adv) beneath, under, down, infra, downstairs, (prep) underneath, (adj) low, after; antonyms (prep) above, over, 2. beneath; synonym (adv) below.
- **НИЖЧЕНАВЕДЕНИЙ** following; *synonyms* (*adj*) consequent, next, ensuing, subsequent, consecutive, later, posterior, succeeding, (*v*) consequential, (*n*) entourage, chase, followers, pursuit, (*adv*) under, after; *antonym* (*adj*) preceding.
- HUЖЧИЙ 1. inferior; synonyms (adj) bad, secondary, subordinate, humble, poor, cheap, junior, lesser, petty, base, feeble, coarse, common, vulgar, (prep) below; antonyms (adj) better, choice, excellent, first-rate, high-class, premium, (n) superior, superscript, 2. lower; synonyms (adj) debase, inferior, (v) degrade, diminish, frown, dip, abase, cut, descend, drop, scowl, disgrace, decrease, demean, (n) depress; antonyms (v) increase, raise.
- **HU3** bottom; *synonyms* (n) base, basis, backside, bed, behind, foot, footing, back, arse, ass, bum, butt, buttocks, craft, floor; *antonyms* (n) top, pinnacle, (adj) highest.
- HH3KA 1. file; *synonyms* (n) archive, document, list, procession, rank, record, roll, series, string, (v) order, rasp, register, scrape, abrade, arrange, 2. row; *synonyms* (n) altercation, line, file, squabble, wrangle, clash, dispute, turmoil, (v) quarrel, brawl, fight, argue, bicker, (adj) fracas, riot; antonyms (n) agreement, (v) agree.
- **низький** 1. low; *synonyms* (*adj*) contemptible, abject, humble, ignoble, base, blue, common, deep, dejected, depressed, down, downcast, downhearted, (*adv*) gentle, (*n*) depression; *antonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, happy, highpitched, loud, important, piercing, (*n*) high, **2**. short; *synonyms* (*adj*) brief, concise, scarce, brusque, close, curt, sharp, compendious, laconic, abrupt, deficient,

- diminutive, inadequate, insufficient, lacking; *antonyms* (*adj*) long, tall, lengthy, **3**. base; *synonyms* (*n*) foundation, basis, leg, stand, (*adj*) bottom, mean, dishonorable, low, vile, bad, despicable, foul, infamous, (*v*) ground, found; *antonyms* (*n*) summit, top, (*adj*) noble, **4**. bass; *synonyms* (*adj*) resonant, rich, sonorous, abstruse, booming, rumbling, cryptic, cryptical, extreme, (*n*) basso, tenor, trout, violoncello, (*adv*) accompaniment, according the statement of the
- **НИЗЬКО** low (низький); *synonyms* (*adj*) contemptible, abject, humble, ignoble, base, blue, common, deep, dejected, depressed, down, downcast, downhearted, (*adv*) gentle, (*n*) depression; *antonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, happy, high-pitched, loud, important, piercing, (*n*) high.
- **НИЗЬКОПРОБНИЙ** base; *synonyms* (*n*) foundation, basis, (*adj*) bottom, abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, (*v*) ground, found; *antonyms* (*n*) summit, top, (*adj*) noble.
- **НИЗЬКОСОРТНИЙ** off; *synonyms* (*adv*) by, forth, beyond, over, aside, gone, abreast, (*adj*) away, bad, putrid, remote, down, rotten, wide, (*int*) out; *antonyms* (*adj*) fresh, on.
- Huhi 1. now; synonyms (adv) forthwith, here, immediately, currently, directly, instantly, presently, already, nowadays, straight, today, just, right, (adj) current, present; antonyms (adv) later, soon, 2. nowadays; synonym (adv) now.
- нинішній present; synonyms (adj) grant, confer, (n) gift, donation, (v) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (adv) absent.
- нирка kidney; *synonyms* (n) class, variety, feather, kind, nature, stripe, mettle, type, description, order, nephros, waiter
- HUΤΚα thread; synonyms (n) string, line, yarn, rope, twine, wire, cord, fiber, (ν) file, range, penetrate, lace, pass, run, meander.
- **HИЩИТИ** destroy; *synonyms* (*v*) break, demolish, blight, despoil, annihilate, blast, crush, dash, destruct, devastate, devour, dismantle, (*adj*) desolate, abolish, consume; *antonyms* (*v*) build, preserve, create, make.
- **Hi** 1. no; *synonyms* (*n*) refusal, rejection, denial, number, nix, rebuff, nobelium, ordinal, (*adv*) nay, (*adj*) zero, naught, none, non, nul, 2. not; *synonyms* (*adv*) no, nor, nowise, never, (*adj*) shaven, shorn.
- ніби allegedly; *synonyms* (*adv*) apparently, seemingly, supposedly, evidently, hypothetically, presumably, purportedly, superficially, theoretically, (*adi*) so-called.
- **Hige** nowhere; *synonyms* (*adv*) minus, nowhither, without, (*n*) limbo, oblivion, (*adj*) tiresome, average, banal, emotionless, insipid, prosaic, tasteless, uninteresting, unsophisticated, vapid.
- **Hiж** Knife; *synonyms* (n) dagger, tongue, whittle, clapper, couteau, cuttle, cuttlefish, (v) stab, wound, jab, slit, betray, dig, (adj) blade, cutlery.
- HIЖKA leg; *synonyms* (n) stage, blackleg, branch, peg, post, arm, column, limb, member, phase, rook, shank, support, fork.
- **ніжний 1**. delicate; *synonyms* (*adj*) fine, accurate, breakable, dainty, fragile, refined, tender, beautiful,

- brittle, difficult, frail, nice, sensitive, soft, slim; antonyms (adj) strong, inelegant, robust, heavy, sturdy, tough, 2. soft; synonyms (adj) gentle, easy, light, limp, balmy, delicate, quiet, slack, loose, clement, faint, flabby, flaccid, (v) feeble, low; antonyms (adj) hard, firm, harsh, loud, hoarse, rough, solid, stiff, alcoholic, shrill, 3. tender; synonyms (adj) affectionate, painful, loving, sore, compassionate, fond, mild, caring, (v) proffer, present, propose, give, (n) offer, bid, overture; antonyms (adi) hardhearted, rubbery, 4, devoted: synonyms (adi) addicted, ardent, consecrated, constant, faithful, loyal, pious, committed, dutiful, eager, enthusiastic, keen, passionate, reliable, (prep) dedicated; antonyms (adj) uncommitted, disloyal, indifferent, 5. fond; synonyms (adj) amorous, devoted, adoring, doting, attached, indulgent, kind, enamored; antonym (adj) uncaring, 6. gentle; synonyms (adj) calm, friendly, affable, tame, amiable, benign, bland, docile, kindly, elegant, courteous, flexible, benignant, (n) benevolent, (v) appease; antonyms (adi) caustic, cruel, fierce, violent, abrupt, sarcastic, sheer, steep.
- HI米HO gently; synonyms (adv) gradually, mildly, tenderly, soft, delicately, kindly, lightly, meekly, quietly, softly; antonyms (adv) abruptly, cruelly, fiercely, forcefully, harshly, severely, sharply, violently, intensely, roughly.
- **ніколи** never; *synonyms* (*adv*) ne'er, nevermore, nor, tomorrow; *antonym* (*adv*) always.
- **нікуди 1**. nowhere; *synonyms* (*adv*) minus, nowhither, without, (*n*) limbo, oblivion, (*adj*) tiresome, average, banal, emotionless, insipid, prosaic, tasteless, uninteresting, unsophisticated, vapid, **2**. anywhere; *synonyms* (*adv*) anyplace, everyplace.
- **німий** dumb; *synonyms* (*adj*) mute, dense, dim, dull, silent, speechless, inarticulate, obtuse, slow, stupid, idiotic, quiet, taciturn, thick, voiceless.
- **HIMITU** sleep (CΠαΤ**U**); *synonyms* (*n*) nap, doze, kip, slumber, lie, dream, siesta, (*v*) rest, repose, catnap, hibernate, nod, lodge, snooze, quiet.
- **Hic** nose; *synonyms* (n) beak, hooter, nozzle, proboscis, honker, bow, (v) pry, scent, sniff, wind, nuzzle, search, smell, snoop, poke.
- HICEHITHULЯ nonsense; *synonyms* (*n*) gibberish, absurdity, balderdash, baloney, drivel, folderol, foolishness, humbug, claptrap, falderal, folly, hooey, jargon, rigmarole, (*v*) stuff; *antonym* (*n*) sense.
- HICKIJIKU nothing; synonyms (n) zero, cipher, nobody, nihil, nonentity, aught, cypher, nix, null, trifle, nada, zilch, (adv) naught, (adj) nil, worthless; antonym (pron) something.
- **HIXTO 1.** nobody; synonyms (n) cipher, naught, zero, nil, cypher, nonentity, nothing, zip, none, nullity, aught, nada; antonyms (pron) everyone, (n) celebrity, personality, 2. none; synonym (adj) no, 3. neither; synonym (conj) nother.
- Hi4 night; synonyms (n) dark, evening, dusk, darkness, nighttime, twilight, (adj) nocturnal; antonyms (n) day, light.

- HIЧНИЙ night; *synonyms* (n) dark, evening, dusk, darkness, nighttime, twilight, (adj) nocturnal; antonyms (n) day, light.
- Hiчoro nothing; synonyms (n) zero, cipher, nobody, nihil, nonentity, aught, cypher, nix, null, trifle, nada, zilch, (adv) naught, (adj) nil, worthless; antonym (pron) something.
- HIIIIA bay; synonyms (n) alcove, bark, recess, cry, harbor, fiord, sound, cove, embayment, gulf, (adj) brown, (v) yap, roar, bellow, howl.
- **ніщо 1**. nothing; synonyms (n) zero, cipher, nobody, nihil, nonentity, aught, cypher, nix, null, trifle, nada, zilch, (adv) naught, (adj) nil, worthless; antonym (pron) something, 2. zero (нуль); synonyms (n) nothing, nought, nullity, root, zip, 3. anything; synonyms (pron) whatever, suchlike, (n) thing, aucht, (adv) anywise, 4. none; synonym (adj) no.
- **ніякий 1**. no; *synonyms* (n) refusal, rejection, denial, number, nix, rebuff, nobelium, ordinal, (adv) nay, (adj) zero, naught, none, non, nul, **2**. neither; *synonym* (conj) nother, **3**. none; *synonyms* (adj) nil, no.
- **HOBATOPCTBO** innovation; *synonyms* (n) change, alteration, invention, mutation, novelty, variation, creation, reform, improvement, vicissitude, conception, conversion, design, excogitation, feature.
- HOBEJIA 1. novel; synonyms (n) fiction, romance, book, (adj) new, curious, fresh, modern, different, unprecedented, original, newfangled, recent, strange, unfamiliar, unique; antonym (adj) old, 2. story, synonyms (n) layer, history, account, narration, narrative, recital, report, tale, fable, falsehood, fib, floor, legend, level, novel; antonym (n) truth.
- HOBH3Ha novelty; synonyms (n) innovation, freshness, mutation, newness, change, trinket, curiosity, oddity, originality, bangle, bauble, difference, fallal, gaud, (adj) news.
- новий 1. new; synonyms (adj) green, modern, novel, original, additional, inexperienced, innovative, raw, recent, strange, unaccustomed, unprecedented, young, (adv) fresh, lately; antonyms (adj) old, familiar, outgoing, second-hand, traditional, used, less, old-fashioned, stale, (adv) past, 2. youthful; synonyms (adj) immature, juvenile, adolescent, vernal, childish, new, tender, beardless; antonym (adj) adult, 3. fresh; synonyms (adj) bracing, brisk, clean, bright, airy, bold, alive, chilly, cool, forward, pure, smart, sweet, flippant, fair; antonyms (adj) decayed, exhausted, hot, humid, muggy, musty, off, oppressive, rotten, tired, worn, dry, sweltering, 4. novel; synonyms (n) fiction, romance, book, narrative, story, tale, (adi) curious, different, newfangled, unfamiliar, unique, extraordinary, abnormal, foreign, uncommon, 5. modern; synonyms (adj) fashionable, late, advanced, current, latest, contemporary, present, stylish, chic, latter, up-to-date, existing, modernistic, modish, (n) neoteric; antonyms (adj) ancient, antiquated, prehistoric, conservative, neurotic, old-time, primordial.
- HOBHHA 1. news; synonyms (n) advice, information, intelligence, message, tidings, story, communication, gossip, notice, report, bulletin, dispatch, rumor, word, (adj) new, 2. novelty; synonyms (n) innovation,

- freshness, mutation, newness, change, trinket, curiosity, oddity, originality, bangle, bauble, difference, fallal, gaud, (*adj*) news, **3**. breeze; *synonyms* (*n*) breath, air, gust, blow, flurry, gale, wind, zephyr, (*v*) move.
- новини news; *synonyms* (*n*) advice, information, intelligence, message, tidings, story, communication, gossip, notice, report, bulletin, dispatch, rumor, word, (*adi*) new.
- **HOBИНКA** novelty; *synonyms* (*n*) innovation, freshness, mutation, newness, change, trinket, curiosity, oddity, originality, bangle, bauble, difference, fallal, gaud, (*adi*) news.
- HOBITHIM new; synonyms (adj) green, modern, novel, original, additional, inexperienced, innovative, raw, recent, strange, unaccustomed, unprecedented, young, (adv) fresh, lately; antonyms (adj) old, familiar, outgoing, second-hand, traditional, used, less, old-fashioned, stale, (adv) past.
- **новобранець** recruit; *synonyms* (*v*) draft, enlist, raise, enrol, enter, levy, retrieve, enroll, recover, (*n*) novice, beginner, conscript, draftee, freshman, refresh.
- нововведення 1. innovation; *synonyms* (*n*) change, alteration, invention, mutation, novelty, variation, creation, reform, improvement, vicissitude, conception, conversion, design, excogitation, feature, 2. novelty; *synonyms* (*n*) innovation, freshness, newness, trinket, curiosity, oddity, originality, bangle, bauble, difference, fallal, gaud, gewgaw, knickknack, (*adj*) news.
- HOΓA 1. foot; synonyms (n) bottom, base, feet, foundation, basis, footing, measure, paw, pes, bed, butt, floor, (v) hoof, pay, hand; antonym (n) top, 2. leg; synonyms (n) stage, blackleg, branch, peg, post, arm, column, limb, member, phase, rook, shank, support, fork.
- **HOMEP 1.** Size; *synonyms* (*n*) measure, bulk, capacity, dimension, dimensions, extent, largeness, quantity, glue, amount, breadth, degree, magnitude, mass, (*v*) gauge; *antonyms* (*n*) length, slenderness, **2**. number; *synonyms* (*n*) count, score, act, issue, volume, character, company, (*v*) calculate, aggregate, enumerate, figure, total, come, add, account.
- **HOMIHA**. I par; *synonyms* (n) average, equality, equivalence, mean, norm, equation, parity, (*adj*) median.
- **номінальний** nominal; *synonyms* (*adj*) titular, formal, token, minimal, minimum, nominative, (*v*) cognominal; *antonym* (*adj*) real.
- **HOMIHALIS** nomination; *synonyms* (n) appointment, assignment, return, delegation, (v) nuncupation.
- **HOHCEHC** nonsense; *synonyms* (*n*) gibberish, absurdity, balderdash, baloney, drivel, folderol, foolishness, humbug, claptrap, falderal, folly, hooey, jargon, rigmarole, (*v*) stuff; *antonym* (*n*) sense.
- HopMa 1. norm; synonyms (n) average, mean, measure, mode, criterion, model, median, gauge, par, pattern, principle, rule, 2. rate; synonyms (n) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (v) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put, 3. standard; synonyms (adj) normal, regular, accepted, classic, common, conventional, (n) degree, flag, norm, rate, benchmark, example, prototype, canon, column; antonyms (adj) unusual, unconventional, special, 4. principle; synonyms (n) origin, fundamental,

- method, cause, doctrine, ground, basis, dogma, element, essence, law, precept, reason, tenet, base.
- **нормальний** normal; *synonyms* (*adj*) regular, common, conventional, customary, general, ordinary, everyday, habitual, mean, natural, typical, just, average, commonplace, formal; *antonyms* (*adj*) abnormal, unusual, creepy, eccentric, extraordinary, irregular, odd, strange, supernatural, unconventional, weird, irrational, phenomenal.
- **нормально** normally; *synonyms* (*adv*) generally, ordinarily, usually, commonly, customarily, habitually, regularly, routinely; *antonyms* (*adv*) abnormally, unusually, eccentrically, oddly, peculiarly, strangely.
- **HOCUJIKU** litter; *synonyms* (n) brood, bedding, stretcher, garbage, junk, mess, refuse, rubbish, trash, waste, issue, (v) clutter, (*adj*) jumble, disarray, huddle.
- **носильник** 1. porter; *synonyms* (*n*) carrier, doorkeeper, gatekeeper, janitor, caretaker, doorman, ostiary, concierge, redcap, 2. carrier; *synonyms* (*n*) bearer, messenger, courier, mailman, porter, postman, vehicle, transport, envoy, bag, channel, container, emissary, newsboy, solvent.
- носити 1. bear (ведмідь); synonyms (v) carry, accept, abide, acquit, stand, take, afford, allow, apply, assume, behave, brook, comport, conduct, convey, 2. carry; synonyms (v) bear, bring, hold, pack, transport, load, admit, adopt, act, capture, cart, channel, contain, deport, ferry, 3. wear; synonyms (v) dress, endure, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, break, (n) clothing, apparel, attire, clothes, garb, erosion, garment; antonym (v) refresh.
- **HOCHTUCS** Wear; *synonyms* (*v*) dress, endure, bear, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, (*n*) clothing, apparel, attire, clothes, garb, erosion, garment; *antonym* (*v*) refresh.
- **HOCIHHЯ 1.** Wear; *synonyms* (v) dress, endure, bear, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, (n) clothing, apparel, attire, clothes, garb, erosion, garment; *antonym* (v) refresh, **2.** bearing; *synonyms* (n) carriage, demeanor, appearance, approach, aspect, attitude, conduct, deportment, direction, manner, respect, air, aim, behavior, comportment.
- HOTA note; synonyms (n) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, (v) notice, mind, look, detect; antonym (v) ignore.
- HOTATKA 1. note; synonyms (n) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, (v) notice, mind, look, detect; antonym (v) ignore, 2. memorandum; synonyms (n) memo, note, memorial, entry, letter, memoranda, record.
- **HOTAUIЯ** notation; *synonyms* (n) annotation, memo, note, memorandum, register, annotating, banknote, bill, billet, digit, distinction, document, eminence, greenback, line.
- **HOTИ** music (музика); *synonyms* (n) harmony, melody, chorus, musical, composition, sound, euphony, medicine, refrain, din, entertainment, gayety, glee, (adj) decreasing, increasing.
- ночувати sleep (спати); synonyms (n) nap, doze, kip, slumber, lie, dream, siesta, (v) rest, repose, catnap, hibernate, nod, lodge, snooze, quiet.

- HOIIIA burden; synonyms (n) load, anxiety, pack, strain, bale, care, cargo, concern, core, (v) bother, weight, burthen, clog, trouble, afflict; antonyms (v) relieve, unburden
- HY 1. well (добре); synonyms (adv) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, good, (adj) healthy, fit, shaft, sound, robust, (n) fountain, spring, pit, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous, 2. now; synonyms (adv) forthwith, here, immediately, currently, directly, instantly, presently, already, nowadays, straight, today, just, (adj) current, present, trendy; antonyms (adv) later, soon.
- нудний 1. boring; synonyms (adj) dull, tedious, tiresome, annoying, arid, bland, dreary, monotonous, prosaic, tame, uninteresting, wearisome, vapid, drab, (n) drilling; antonyms (adj) exciting, fascinating, interesting, gripping, original, thrilling, varied, 2. tedious; synonyms (adj) boring, slow, heavy, dry, flat, humdrum, irksome, lifeless, deadly, insipid, verbose, stodgy, prolix, lengthy, (v) stupid; antonym (adj) easy, 3. dull; synonyms (adj) dim, blunt, dense, sluggish, cloudy, cold, dark, dismal, inactive, inert, obtuse, slack, torpid, (v) deaden, dampen; antonyms (adj) bright, lively, sharp, lustrous, stimulating, amusing, exhilarating, glittery, glossy, glowing, high-pitched, intense, luminous, shiny, sparkling.
- **HYДOTA** sickness; *synonyms* (n) illness, indisposition, complaint, malady, qualm, distemper, nausea, disgust, infirmity, affliction, loathing, ill, (ν) disease, disorder, ailment.
- **НУДОТНИЙ** nasty; *synonyms* (*adj*) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, awful, mean, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, distasteful, evil, hurtful, obnoxious, raw; *antonyms* (*adj*) agreeable, kind, pleasant, nice, charitable, lovely.
- нудьга 1. boredom; *synonyms* (*n*) tedium, monotony, doldrums, dullness, ennui, tediousness, melancholy; *antonyms* (*n*) excitement, enjoyment, 2. bore; *synonyms* (*v*) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (*n*) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (*adj*) pother; *antonyms* (*v*) interest, excite, fascinate.
- **НУДЬГУЮЧИЙ** sick; *synonyms* (*adj*) ill, queasy, ailing, indisposed, poorly, weary, invalid, diseased, morbid, sickly, nauseous, poor, crazy, disgusted, (*v*) unwell; *antonyms* (*adj*) well, healthy.
- **НУЖДА 1.** want; *synonyms* (*v*) need, desire, (*n*) lack, poverty, wish, deficiency, deprivation, famine, absence, dearth, demand, destitution, indigence, necessity, penury; *antonyms* (*v*) dislike, hate, **2.** necessity; *synonyms* (*n*) essential, exigency, compulsion, emergency, constraint, distress, must, necessary, obligation, requirement, want, occasion, needfulness, pinch, (*v*) use; *antonym* (*n*) option, **3.** need; *synonyms* (*v*) claim, require, involve, exact, have, take, crave, ask, necessitate, (*n*) beggary, motive, hardship, impoverishment, pauperism, privation; *antonym* (*n*) wealth.
- **нуль 1**. zero; *synonyms* (*n*) nil, nothing, nobody, cipher, naught, cypher, nought, null, nihil, nullity, aught, nix, root, zilch, zip, **2**. nothing; *synonyms* (*n*) zero,

- nonentity, trifle, nada, oblivion, (*adj*) worthless; *antonym* (*pron*) something.
- **НУТРОЩІ** gut; *synonyms* (*n*) belly, abdomen, bowel, catgut, (*v*) eviscerate, pillage, ransack, despoil, spoil, loot, sack, plunder, disembowel, ravage, (*adī*) internal.
- HIOX 1. nose (Hic); synonyms (n) beak, hooter, nozzle, proboscis, honker, bow, (v) pry, scent, sniff, wind, nuzzle, search, smell, snoop, poke, 2. smell; synonyms (n) odor, fragrance, savor, aroma, bouquet, odour, savour, stench, flavor, smack, feel, (v) reek, nose, perfume, stink, 3. scent; synonyms (n) essence, redolence, flavour, incense, clue, trail, relish, clew, key, hint, tang, (v) aromatize, snuff, (adj) smoke, suspect.
- **HIOXATH** smell; *synonyms* (n) odor, fragrance, savor, aroma, bouquet, odour, savour, stench, flavor, smack, (ν) reek, nose, perfume, scent, stink.
- нянька 1. nurse; synonyms (n) nurture, doctor, amah, (v) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed, 2. tender; synonyms (adj) affectionate, painful, loving, sensitive, soft, sore, compassionate, delicate, fond, gentle, mild, (v) proffer, (n) offer, bid, overture; antonyms (adj) tough, hard, hardhearted, rubbery, rough.
- **HЯНЬЧЕННЯ** nursing; *synonyms* (n) tending, treatment, nurture.
- **HЯНЬЧИТИ** nurse; *synonyms* (n) nurture, doctor, amah, (v) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- **HЯНЯ** nurse; *synonyms* (n) nurture, doctor, amah, (v) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.

## $\cap$

- **обачний** deliberate; *synonyms* (*adj*) careful, calculated, circumspect, slow, thoughtful, conscious, (•) consider, cogitate, consult, debate, think, confer, contemplate, ponder, reflect; *antonyms* (*adj*) accidental, chance, unintentional, hasty, ingenuous, involuntary, spontaneous.
- **обачність 1**. caution; *synonyms* (n) advice, carefulness, precaution, vigilance, wariness, warning, admonition, attention, caveat, circumspection, counsel, (v) care, warn, admonish, advise; *antonyms* (n) recklessness, carelessness, rashness, **2**. discretion; *synonyms* (n) caution, delicacy, prudence, diplomacy, calculation, discerement, discreteness, tact, confidentiality, choice, cautiousness, perceptiveness, forethought, option, taste.
- OEA 4HO deliberately; synonyms (adv) advisedly, consciously, purposely, designedly, intentionally, knowingly, leisurely, carefully, circumspectly, slowly; antonyms (adv) unintentionally, accidentally, involuntarily, arbitrarily, automatically, furtively.
- **ОБВИНУВАЧЕНИЙ** defendant; *synonyms* (n) accused, litigant, party, plaintiff, prisoner, suspect, defender, perpetrator, (adj) defensive.
- **ОБВИНУВАЧЕННЯ** prosecution; *synonyms* (n) indictment, accusation, execution, arraignment,

- impeachment, lawsuit, litigation, suit, charge, pursuance, citation, (v) pursuit.
- **обвинувачуваний** accused; *synonyms* (n) panel, perpetrator.
- **ОБВИНУВАЧУВАТИ** article (стаття); *synonyms* (*n*) section, object, thing, chapter, clause, commodity, composition, discourse, entity, essay, feature, paper, report, review, story.
- обговорення 1. discussion; synonyms (n) argument, conference, conversation, debate, discourse, controversy, consultation, dialogue, consideration, dispute, negotiation, talk, contention, contest, chat, 2. counsel; synonyms (n) caution, advocate, advisement, admonition, attorney, counselor, exhortation, guidance, recommendation, (v) advice, advise, consult, admonish, confer, exhort, 3. consideration; synonyms (n) concern, respect, attention, care, reflection, thought, account, cogitation, conception, deliberation, notice, tact, thoughtfulness, (v) regard, condition; antonyms (n) thoughtlessness, impulsiveness, inconsideration.
- οδΓοΒΟΡΙΟΒΑΤΗ 1. discuss; synonyms (v) argue, debate, agitate, consult, deliberate, canvass, discourse, dispute, mention, moot, negotiate, reason, converse, weigh, controvert, 2. dispute; synonyms (n) brawl, quarrel, conflict, wrangle, difference, question, combat, argument, (v) contest, controversy, discuss, fight, row, squabble, contradict; antonyms (n) agreement, (v) agree, 3. debate; synonyms (n) argumentation, contention, disputation, consideration, disagreement, discussion, palaver, conversation, conference, deliberation, (v) contend, altercation, altercate, consider, cogitate, 4. consider; synonyms (v) believe, regard, think, view, assume, calculate, conceive, contemplate, reckon, reflect, analyze, deem, esteem, (n) study, examine; antonym (v) ignore.
- **ΟΒΓΡΥΗΤΟΒΑΗΙΙΙ΄** just; *synonyms* (*adv*) exactly, hardly, newly, (*adj*) fair, right, correct, equitable, accurate, honest, impartial, barely, fit, good, reasonable, righteous; *antonyms* (*adj*) unfair, biased, wrong.
- **ОБҐРУНТОВАНИЙ** valid (дійсний); *synonyms* (*adj*) legal, sound, right, genuine, solid, forcible, substantial, authentic, good, legitimate, powerful, rightful, strong, true, cogent; *antonyms* (*adj*) unacceptable, invalid, annulled, bogus, illogical.
- **OBTPYHTOBAHICT5** validity; *synonyms* (*n*) force, truth, authority, legitimacy, soundness, certainty, cogency, effect, power, effectiveness, reality, authenticity, vigor, credibility, hardness.
- **ΟБГРУНТОВУВАТИ** found; *synonyms* (v) erect, establish, base, build, form, constitute, construct, appoint, create, ground, institute, bottom, begin, cast, plant; *antonym* (*adj*) misplaced.
- обдарований 1. capable; synonyms (adj) able, competent, adequate, adept, accomplished, fit, gifted, proficient, qualified, trained, clever, consummate, effective, experienced, (n) efficient; antonyms (adj) incompetent, incapable, inept, unable, 2. clever; synonyms (adj) adroit, capable, acute, apt, intelligent, smart, astute, cunning, expert, ingenious, quick, sharp, skillful, artful, (v) brilliant; antonyms (adj) stupid, clumsy, unintelligent, dim, dull, 3. talented; synonyms

- (adj) versatile, promising, bright, skilled, artistic, cute, felicitous.
- OБДУМАНИЙ studied; synonyms (v) advised, (adj) intentional, deliberate, calculated, conscious, premeditated, affected, elaborate, intended, learned, willful, labored, planned; antonyms (adj) natural, spontaneous.
- **ОБДУМАНО** deliberately; *synonyms* (adv) advisedly, consciously, purposely, designedly, intentionally, knowingly, leisurely, carefully, circumspectly, slowly; *antonyms* (adv) unintentionally, accidentally, involuntarily, arbitrarily, automatically, furtively.
- OБДУМУВАТИ 1. balance; synonyms (n) poise, symmetry, excess, remainder, account, complement, counterpoise, credit, (v) counterbalance, adjust, offset, compensate, contrast, settle, audit; antonyms (n) imbalance, (v) unbalance, 2. contemplate; synonyms (v) consider, cogitate, meditate, muse, speculate, deliberate, look, ponder, reflect, gaze, behold, entertain, intend, mull, reason, 3. debate; synonyms (n) argue, argumentation, contention, argument, controversy, disputation, consideration, (v) contest, dispute, contend, altercation, controvert, discuss, canvass, altercate; antonym (v) agree.
- обережний 1. wary; synonyms (adj) prudent, cautious, careful, circumspect, guarded, vigilant, suspicious, alert, attentive, chary, leery, shy, distrustful, discreet, thoughtful; antonyms (adj) unwary, careless, trusting, reckless, 2. discreet; synonyms (adj) discerning, tactful, wise, diplomatic, considerate, judicious, modest, politic, sensible, gingerly, calculating, canny, delicate, frugal, inconspicuous; antonyms (adj) conspicuous, elaborate, tactless, indiscreet, 3. cautious; synonyms (adj) conservative, watchful, cagey, provident, reserved, wary, moderate, sly, deliberate, economical, heedful, mindful, scrupulous, sparing, subtle; antonyms (adj) rash, impetuous, impulsive, open, incautious, irresponsible, wasteful, 4. careful; synonyms (adj) accurate, thrifty, assiduous, aware, conscientious, diligent, exact, methodical, painstaking, particular, precise, reliable, thorough, (v) anxious, solicitous; antonyms (adj) slapdash, neglectful, 5, deliberate; synonyms (adi) calculated, slow, conscious, considered, (v) consider. cogitate, consult, debate, think, confer, contemplate, ponder, reflect, discuss, excogitate; antonyms (adj) accidental, chance, unintentional, hasty, ingenuous, involuntary, spontaneous.
- обережність 1. caution; synonyms (n) advice, carefulness, precaution, vigilance, wariness, warning, admonition, attention, caveat, circumspection, counsel, (v) care, warn, admonish, advise; antonyms (n) recklessness, carelessness, rashness, 2. discretion; synonyms (n) caution, delicacy, prudence, diplomacy, calculation, discernment, discreetness, tact, confidentiality, choice, cautiousness, perceptiveness, forethought, option, taste, 3. care; synonyms (n) bother, concern, aid, apprehension, custody, keep, maintenance, worry, attendance, affection, attentiveness, burden, (v) anxiety, charge, administer; antonyms (n) thoughtlessness, (v) neglect, disregard.
- **OEEPEXHO** 1. deliberately; *synonyms* (*adv*) advisedly, consciously, purposely, designedly,

- intentionally, knowingly, leisurely, carefully, circumspectly, slowly; *antonyms* (adv) unintentionally, accidentally, involuntarily, arbitrarily, automatically, furtively, **2**. gently; *synonyms* (adv) gradually, mildly, tenderly, soft, delicately, kindly, lightly, meekly, quietly, softly; *antonyms* (adv) abruptly, cruelly, fiercely, forcefully, harshly, severely, sharply, violently, intensely, roughly, **3**. carefully; *synonyms* (adv) cautiously, closely, thoroughly, deliberately, assiduously, attentively, charily, guardedly, meticulously, painstakingly, prudently, scrupulously, warily, watchfully, exactly; *antonyms* (adv) carelessly, hastily, inaccurately, rashly, recklessly, incautiously, indifferently, unhelpfully.
- **ΟБЕРІГАТИ** preserve; *synonyms* (*v*) maintain, keep, defend, guard, hold, save, cure, pickle, protect, uphold, (*n*) conserve, jam, jelly, conserves, marmalade; *antonym* (*v*) destroy.
- obept 1. turn; synonyms (v) revolve, deviate, get, revolution, (n) bend, curve, roll, coil, go, twist, bout, change, round, bent, circle, 2. wind (Birep); synonyms (n) air, gust, clue, gale, intimation, suggestion, (v) curl, meander, turn, twine, blow, crook, entwine, weave, spiral, 3. turnover; synonyms (n) overturn, sales, upset, pastry, overthrow, proceeds, derangement, disorder, disturbance, earnings, flapjack, income, perturbation, (v) harrow, plow, 4. rev; synonyms (n) pastor, rpm, (v) accelerate, cause, institute.
- **обертання** rotation; *synonyms* (n) revolution, gyration, roll, round, turn, circulation, curl, cycle, wheel, orbit, sequence, bout.
- обертати turn; *synonyms* (v) revolve, deviate, get, revolution, (n) bend, curve, roll, coil, go, twist, bout, change, round, bent, circle.
- OBEPTATHCЯ 1. circle (κοπο); synonyms (n) round, association, band, compass, ring, field, range, beat, circuit, company, gang, scope, (v) turn, whirl, encircle, 2. turn; synonyms (v) revolve, deviate, get, revolution, (n) bend, curve, roll, coil, go, twist, bout, change, bent, circle, shift.
- **ОБЕРТОВИЙ** revolutionary; *synonyms* (*adj*) radical, mutineer, rebellious, mutinous, fanatic, lawless, militant, (*n*) insurgent, rebel, extremist, insurrectionist, revolutionist, subversive, activist, anarchist; *antonym* (*adj*) old-fashioned.
- OБ'ЄДНАНИЙ 1. combined; synonyms (adj) joint, united, collective, aggregate, amalgamated, concerted, cooperative, incorporate, conjunct, conjunctive, connected, fused, joined, (adv) jointly, together; antonyms (adj) individual, simple, 2. associated; synonyms (adj) related, affiliated, allied, attendant, attached, confederate, linked, alike; antonym (adj) unrelated, 3. incorporate; synonyms (v) comprise, contain, encompass, combine, embody, include, join, link, affiliate, consolidate, embrace, hold, integrate, involve, (adj) corporate; antonym (v) exclude, 4. joint; synonyms (adj) common, communal, mutual, bilateral, twin, (n) articulation, hinge, seam, connection, tie, joining, junction, juncture, (v) articulate, associate; antonyms (adj) unilateral, private, separate.

- **об'єднання 1**. incorporation; synonyms (n) annexation, inclusion, union, amalgamation, consolidation, embodiment, merger, absorption, affiliation, integration, mixture, synthesis, unification, 2. combine; synonyms (v) amalgamate, associate, blend, affiliate, fuse, attach, piece, aggregate, coalesce, incorporate, join, league, merge, (n) cartel, combination; antonym (v) separate, 3. union; synonyms (n) coalition, connection, junction, association, alliance, coalescence, confederacy, coupling, fusion, marriage, matrimony, conjunction, joint, bond, brotherhood; antonyms (n) separation, divergence, 4. association; synonyms (n) assembly, affinity, company, fellowship, link, partnership, society, syndicate, congress, meeting, band, club, communication, conference, (v) assemblage, 5. fusion; synonyms (n) compound, amalgam, alloy, incorporation, crasis, (v) melting, **6**. corporation; synonyms (n) belly, business, concern, body, corp, firm, organization, agency, establishment, foundation, group, municipality, potbelly, conglomerate, 7. alliance; synonyms (n) alignment, alinement, confederation, cooperation, federation, guild, party, relation, relationship, unity, agnation; *antonym* (n) nonalignment, 8. organization; synonyms (n) order, administration, arrangement, formation, constitution, institution, structure, system, form, enterprise, fabric, management, method, organisation, organism, 9. rally; synonyms (n) convention, gathering, (v) banter, gather, muster, congregate, convene, assemble, chaff, collect, converge, meet, mobilize, recover, ridicule; antonym (v) demobilize, 10. merger; synonym (n) uniting.
- OB'єДНУВАТИ 1. combine; synonyms (v) amalgamate, associate, blend, affiliate, fuse, attach, piece, aggregate, coalesce, incorporate, join, league, merge, (n) cartel, combination; antonym (v) separate, 2. incorporate; synonyms (v) comprise, contain, encompass, combine, embody, include, link, consolidate, embrace, hold, integrate, involve, mix, unite, (adj) corporate; antonym (v) exclude, 3. integrate; synonyms (v) unify, commingle, desegregate; antonym (v) segregate.
- •οδ'єднуватися 1. incorporate; synonyms (v) comprise, contain, encompass, combine, embody, include, join, link, affiliate, consolidate, embrace, hold, integrate, involve, (adj) corporate; antonym (v) exclude, 2. ally; synonyms (n) confederate, accomplice, companion, friend, colleague, partner, accessory, adherent, assistant, auxiliary, (v) align, support, band, (adj) associate, coadjutor; antonyms (n) adversary, foe, opponent, 3. combine; synonyms (v) amalgamate, blend, fuse, attach, piece, aggregate, coalesce, incorporate, league, merge, mix, unite, alloy, (n) cartel, combination; antonym (v) separate.
- **oδ'єκτ 1.** object; synonyms (n) design, aim, cause, end, intent, intention, meaning, mark, matter, subject, substance, drift, (v) except, mind, complain; antonym (v) agree, 2. subject; synonyms (n) citizen, affair, dependent, inferior, issue, motif, question, point, area, content, discipline, field, national, (adj) liable, exposed; antonym (adj) liberated.

- об'єктивний objective; synonyms (adj) dispassionate, fair, impartial, just, concrete, detached, (n) aim, mark, goal, object, ambition, design, end, intent, intention; antonyms (adj) biased, subjective.
- οδ'єм 1. volume; synonyms (n) bulk, size, book, magnitude, mass, quantity, dimension, amount, capacity, intensity, loudness, tome, journal, (adj) deal, pot; antonym (n) quietness, 2. capacity; synonyms (n) capability, aptitude, capacitance, function, intelligence, talent, might, content, endowment, faculty, gift, measure, position, potential, (adj) ability; antonyms (n) inability, incapability.
- **ОБИДВА** either; *synonyms* (*det*) any, (*conj*) other.
- **οδυρατυ 1**. choose; *synonyms* (*v*) adopt, elect, pick, prefer, select, appoint, take, assign, decide, desire, determine, draw, excerpt, like, vote; *antonyms* (*v*) reject, refuse, **2**. select; *synonyms* (*v*) extract, choose, excellent, opt, cull, nominate, gather, (*adj*) choice, exclusive, chosen, best, rare, selective, elite, exquisite.
- οδία 1. dinner; synonyms (n) feast, banquet, lunch, meal, party, spread, (v) tiffin, bever, dejeuner, 2. band; synonyms (n) cluster, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, strip, (v) ring, combine, 3. rim; synonyms (n) border, edge, margin, brim, brink, boundary, verge, lip, confine, bound, flange, limit, (v) skirt, hem, line.
- **ОБІДАТИ** dinner; *synonyms* (n) feast, banquet, lunch, meal, party, spread, (v) tiffin, bever, dejeuner.
- обізнаний 1. aware; synonyms (adj) awake, attentive, conscious, heedful, mindful, vigilant, sentient, alert, enlightened, knowing, knowledgeable, observant, sensible, wary, watchful; antonyms (adj) unaware, unconscious, 2. informed; synonyms (adj) aware, cognizant, educated, familiar, apprised, wise, conversant, experienced, (adv) abreast; antonym (adj) ignorant.
- OБIPBAHИЙ ragged; synonyms (adj) seedy, threadbare, worn, hoarse, jagged, scruffy, torn, dilapidated, rugged, shaggy, tattered, unkempt, (n) shabby, harsh, rough; antonyms (adj) pristine, smart, elegant.
- **ΟΒΙΤΗΝЦЯ** profession; *synonyms* (n) confession, declaration, employment, occupation, affirmation, calling, career, job, vocation, position, assertion, assurance, avowal, business, craft.
- обіцянка 1. promise (обіцяти); synonyms (n) engagement, assurance, bargain, engage, hope, plight, word, (v) pledge, covenant, guarantee, contract, vow, augur, assure, undertake, 2. word; synonyms (n) promise, news, tidings, advice, expression, intelligence, parole, password, report, statement, term, vocable, (v) formulate, phrase, put, 3. faith (віра); synonyms (n) confidence, belief, conviction, trust, credence, credit, creed, cult, allegiance, dependence, expectation, fidelity, piety, reliance, religion; antonym (n) unbelief.
- **обіцяти** promise (обіцянка); *synonyms* (n) engagement, assurance, bargain, engage, hope, plight, word, (v) pledge, covenant, guarantee, contract, vow, augur, assure, undertake.

- **ΟБ**Κ**ЛАДАТИ** impose; *synonyms* (*v*) force, dictate, charge, enforce, exact, prescribe, clamp, deceive, burden, enjoin, lay, levy, order, set, tax.
- обкладинка 1. cover; synonyms (v) coat, conceal, top, bury, cloak, (n) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield; antonyms (v) reveal, expose, uncover, 2. binding; synonyms (adj) necessary, obligatory, valid, mandatory, compulsory, effectual, requisite, (n) cover, band, dressing, bond, wrapping, back, bandaging, hooping, 3. envelope; synonyms (n) container, pack, case, jacket, vesicle, package, box, packet, wrapper, sachet, (v) veil, wrap.
- OBKPAJATH rob; synonyms (v) filch, pinch, deprive, pilfer, pillage, plunder, rifle, fleece, lift, purloin, steal, pick, divest, defraud, despoil.
- **облагороджувати** gentle; *synonyms* (*adj*) clement, calm, easy, friendly, soft, affable, balmy, kind, mild, tame, feeble, amiable, benign, bland, (*n*) benevolent; *antonyms* (*adj*) caustic, cruel, fierce, harsh, loud, violent, rough, abrupt, hardhearted, heavy, sarcastic, sheer, steep.
- **обладнання 1**. equipment; *synonyms* (*n*) material, apparatus, facility, gear, outfit, furnishings, apparel, accoutrements, baggage, goods, belongings, device, kit, stuff, (*v*) furniture, **2**. tackle; *synonyms* (*v*) handle, harness, undertake, attempt, stop, struggle, grapple, attack, confront, (*n*) equipment, rigging, paraphernalia, rig, tools; *antonym* (*v*) avoid, **3**. outfit; *synonyms* (*n*) dress, garb, clothing, company, costume, ensemble, pack, clothes, group, (*v*) attire, equip, fit, furnish, clothe, appoint.
- **ОБЛАСНИЙ** regional; *synonyms* (*adj*) district, local, parochial, sectional, neighborhood, topical, native, community, home, neighboring; *antonym* (*adj*) central.
- область 1. area (площа); synonyms (n) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood, section, sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land, 2. region; synonyms (n) country, area, part, realm, circuit, division, locality, province, quarter, territory, belt, range, department, ground, dominion, 3. territory (територія); synonyms (n) state, kingdom, jurisdiction, possession, terrain, environment, habitat, community, space, nation, colony, county, empire, estate, home, 4. field (поле); synonyms (n) arena, battlefield, battleground, court, discipline, soil, bailiwick, champaign, meadow, plain, scope, stadium, subject, close, ambit, 5. province; synonyms (n) duty, function, line, commonwealth, office, responsibility.
- **ObJIAHATII** invest; *synonyms* (v) install, clothe, empower, endow, adorn, commit, crown, dress, endue, enthrone, indue, vest, inaugurate, induct, intrust.
- **облицювання** facing; *synonyms* (n) face, revetment, cladding, coating, lining, veneer, front, insert, (*prep*) opposite, against, before, (*adj*) fronting, diametric.
- обличчя face; synonyms (n) look, aspect, countenance, expression, side, top, exterior, appearance, facade, surface, (v) confront, audacity, veneer, visage, (adj) front; antonyms (v) avoid, back.
- **облігація** obligation; *synonyms* (n) debt, bond, commitment, duty, liability, charge, burden, necessity,

- need, onus, requirement, responsibility, covenant, job, compulsion; *antonym* (n) option.
- **облік 1.** accounting; *synonyms* (*adj*) clerical, office, secretarial, (*n*) bookkeeping, account, accountancy, chronicle, explanation, grounds, history, story, **2**. telling; *synonyms* (*adj*) significant, revealing, effective, effectual, emphatic, impressive, pregnant, cogent, powerful, forceful, potent, trenchant, (*n*) recounting, relation, notice.
- **облога** siege; *synonyms* (*n*) blockade, besieging, assiege, beleaguering, estimation, grade, station, stool, (*v*) surround, beleaguer, hedge, overwhelm.
- ΟΕΛΙΥΠΑ deception; synonyms (n) deceit, illusion, trick, betrayal, delusion, fake, pretense, bluff, artifice, cheating, con, duplicity, fallacy, falsehood, (v) cheat; antonym (n) honesty.
- o6MaH 1. fraud; synonyms (n) cheat, deceit, duplicity, counterfeit, deception, dishonesty, fake, sham, falsehood, cheating, con, faker, impostor, swindle, trick; antonym (n) honesty, 2. deception; synonyms (n) illusion, betrayal, delusion, pretense, bluff, artifice, fallacy, fraud, guile, hoax, imposture, lie, ruse, subterfuge, wile, 3. craft; synonyms (n) boat, ability, art, cunning, trade, artfulness, shift, business, job, occupation, profession, skill, vessel, work, calling.
- **ΟΕΜΑΗΙΙ[ИΚ** fraud; synonyms (n) cheat, deceit, duplicity, counterfeit, deception, dishonesty, fake, sham, falsehood, cheating, con, faker, impostor, swindle, trick; antonym (n) honesty.
- Obmahiobatu 1. impose; synonyms (v) force, dictate, charge, enforce, exact, prescribe, clamp, deceive, burden, enjoin, lay, levy, order, set, tax, 2. trick; synonyms (n) deceit, deception, joke, prank, device, dupe, stratagem, knack, (v) swindle, cheat, fraud, sham, con, mislead, beguile.
- **oбмахувати** fan; *synonyms* (n) admirer, buff, devotee, enthusiast, addict, adherent, afficionado, fiend, follower, advocate, disciple, (v) air, winnow, refresh, blow; *antonym* (n) detractor.
- **ObmallyBath** thumb; *synonyms* (*n*) pollex, forefinger, hand, (*v*) finger, feel, flip, handle, leaf, flick, hitch, hitchhike, riffle, touch.
- обмежений 1. limited; synonyms (adj) finite, circumscribed, moderate, qualified, special, insular, bounded, narrow, scanty, slender, particular, specific, definite, conditional, constricted; antonyms (adj) boundless, infinite, limitless, open, complete, neverending, unlimited, wide, 2. finite; synonyms (adj) limited, mortal, conditioned, demarcated; antonyms (adj) countless, endless, 3. confined; synonyms (v) accurate, (adj) captive, close, cramped, imprisoned, invalided, constrained, poky, restricted, strict, jailed; antonym (adj) free, 4. qualified; synonyms (adj) competent, capable, eligible, efficient, fit, proficient, able, clever, expert, adequate, certified, fitted, prepared, provisional, proper; antonyms (adi) unqualified, total, unofficial, 5, narrow: synonyms (adi) little, illiberal, mean, bigoted, (v) confined, contract, limit, lessen, constrict, shrink, abridge, dwindle, intimate, compress, confine; antonyms (adj) broad, comprehensive, extensive, (v) widen, extend.

- **Obmexenicts** limitation; *synonyms* (*n*) circumscription, limit, restraint, restriction, check, constraint, control, curb, demarcation, condition, disadvantage, qualification, confinement, handicap, bound; *antonym* (*n*) extension.
- обмеження 1. limitation; synonyms (n) circumscription, limit, restraint, restriction, check, constraint, control, curb, demarcation, condition, disadvantage, qualification, confinement, handicap, bound; antonym (n) extension, 2. restriction; synonyms (n) limitation, embargo, bridle, ban, confine, impediment, prohibition, stipulation, stricture, barrier, rule, cramp, repression, block, (v) hindrance; antonym (n) freedom, 3. constraint; synonyms (n) coercion, compulsion, force, duress, enforcement, obligation, pressure, coaction, necessity, violence, brake, cohibition, (adj) reserve; antonym (n) incentive, 4. qualification; synonyms (n) capability, competence, fitness, preparation, prerequisite, provision, degree, ability, alteration, modification. requirement, reservation, (adj) faculty, endowment, property, 5. restraint; synonyms (n) moderation, modesty, containment, obstacle, deterrent, discipline, inhibition, leash, forbearance, arrest, detention, bond, rein, suppression, (v) obstruction; antonyms (n) excess, abandon, decadence.
- обмежувати 1. limit; synonyms (n) bound, boundary, edge, (v) border, restrict, circumscribe, confine, curb, restrain, abridge, check, close, constrain, curtail, (prep) extent; antonyms (n) center, extension, minimum, (v) broaden, extend, 2. restrict; synonyms (v) limit, fetter, forbid, hamper, reduce, ration, bind, contain, cramp, modify, prohibit, qualify, regulate, straiten, ban, 3. bound; synonyms (v) leap, bounce, pounce, rebound, skip, vault, define, (adj) bandaged, (n) spring, jump, barrier, compass, hop, recoil, limitation; antonym (adj) free
- **oбмін** exchange; *synonyms* (*n*) commutation, swap, switch, commerce, conversion, substitute, (*v*) change, barter, interchange, commute, counterchange, alternate, alter, cash, convert.
- **οδωίμιοΒατμ 1**. exchange; *synonyms* (n) commutation, swap, switch, commerce, conversion, substitute, (v) change, barter, interchange, commute, counterchange, alternate, alter, cash, convert, **2**. change; *synonyms* (n) shift, alteration, modification, variation, move, adjustment, alternation, (v) exchange, adapt, transpose, turn, twist, affect, adjust, amend; *antonyms* (v) stay, leave, idle, maintain, **3**. truck; *synonyms* (n) traffic, car, cart, trade, van, bogie, automobile, cap, crest, motortruck, tub, vehicle, (v) swop, transport.
- **обмінюватися** exchange; *synonyms* (n) commutation, swap, switch, commerce, conversion, substitute, (v) change, barter, interchange, commute, counterchange, alternate, alter, cash, convert.
- οδмірковувати 1. deliberate; synonyms (adj) careful, calculated, circumspect, slow, thoughtful, conscious, (v) consider, cogitate, consult, debate, think, confer, contemplate, ponder, reflect; antonyms (adj) accidental, chance, unintentional, hasty, ingenuous, involuntary, spontaneous, 2. think; synonyms (v) believe, reckon, estimate, guess, hold, imagine, muse, regard, suppose,

- conjecture, deliberate, expect, meditate, reason, study; *antonym* (v) forget, **3**. reason; *synonyms* (n) mind, account, intellect, occasion, argument, object, purpose, rationality, understanding, basis, (v) cause, argue, conclude, deduce, discuss.
- **ΟΕΜΙΡΚΎΒΑΗΗЯ** calculation; *synonyms* (n) reckoning, account, analysis, arithmetic, computation, deliberation, discretion, estimate, forecast, anticipation, projection, count, expectation, (ν) estimation, (*adj*) circumspection.
- **ОБМУНДИРУВАННЯ** outfit; *synonyms* (n) dress, garb, gear, kit, apparel, clothing, company, costume, ensemble, rig, (v) equipment, attire, equip, fit, furnish.
- **обов'язковий 1**. compulsory; *synonyms* (*adj*) obligatory, required, binding, involuntary, mandatory, necessary, imperative, forcible, essential, requisite, unavoidable; *antonyms* (*adj*) optional, voluntary, **2**. mandatory; *synonyms* (*adj*) compulsory, (*n*) mandatary.
- **OEOB'93KOBICTL** obligation; *synonyms* (*n*) debt, bond, commitment, duty, liability, charge, burden, necessity, need, onus, requirement, responsibility, covenant, job, compulsion; *antonym* (*n*) option.
- **обов'язково** necessarily; *synonyms* (*adv*) inevitably, needs, consequentially, inescapably, indispensably, needfully, essentially, automatically, basically, crucially, deeply, ineluctably, manifestly, needily, needly; *antonym* (*adv*) unnecessarily.
- ofob's3ok 1. duty; synonyms (n) business, function, commitment, assignment, charge, chore, obligation, dues, job, must, office, part, responsibility, tax, work, 2. obligation; synonyms (n) debt, bond, duty, liability, burden, necessity, need, onus, requirement, covenant, compulsion, contract, pressure, engagement, promise; antonym (n) option, 3. business; synonyms (n) employment, matter, subject, affair, calling, concern, corporation, deal, event, occupation, profession, trade, vocation, action, affairs; antonyms (adj) charitable, housing, 4. office; synonyms (n) agency, position, commission, appointment, division, authority, berth, bureau, place, post, location, establishment, department, mission, role.
- **ΟΕΟЖΗΙΟΒΑΤΙ** worship; *synonyms* (n) adoration, respect, adulation, veneration, cult, admiration, devotion, exaltation, homage, (v) praise, honor, revere, reverence, adore, glorify; *antonym* (v) hate.
- оболонка 1. shell; synonyms (n) peel, rind, bullet, case, casing, sheath, bark, carcass, crust, shot, (v) bomb, bombard, husk, pod, blast, 2. envelope; synonyms (n) container, pack, jacket, blanket, vesicle, package, box, packet, screen, wrapper, (v) cover, covering, cloak, veil, wrap, 3. membrane; synonyms (n) diaphragm, film, skin, coat, coating.
- OБОПІЛЬНИЙ mutual; synonyms (adj) reciprocal, common, communal, joint, bilateral, collective, public, alternate, concerted, shared, united, commutual, interchangeable; antonyms (adj) individual, unilateral, one-sided, private.
- **оборона** 1. defence; *synonyms* (*n*) defense, vindication, denial, abnegation, demurrer, refutation, demur, demurral, disproof, falsification, falsifying, prohibition, whitewash, 2. defensive; *synonyms* (*adj*) protective,

- preventive, protecting, safeguarding, anticipatory, blocking, defendant, defensory, excusatory, fenceful, justificative, justificatory, opposed, preventative, suspicious; *antonym* (*adj*) offensive.
- ОБОРОННИЙ defensive; synonyms (adj) protective, preventive, protecting, safeguarding, anticipatory, blocking, defendant, defensory, excusatory, fenceful, justificative, justificatory, opposed, preventative, suspicious; antonym (adj) offensive.
- обороняти defend; synonyms (v) cover, guard, assert, justify, protect, advocate, champion, maintain, shield, support, apologize, hold, preserve, safeguard, shelter; antonyms (v) attack, prosecute.
- **ΟБΠРИСКУВАТИ** spray; *synonyms* (*n*) jet, mist, froth, aerosol, atomizer, foam, branch, (*ν*) shower, splash, spout, spurt, dust, gush, scatter, spatter.
- **ΟБПРИСКУВАЧ** bomb; *synonyms* (n) grenade, shell, dud, rocket, bullet, explosive, fiasco, failure, (ν) blast, bombard, fail, flop, explode.
- **oбpa3** image; *synonyms* (*n*) figure, picture, fancy, conception, effigy, form, idea, impression, resemblance, design, double, epitome, icon, (*v*) depict, envision.
- oбpasa 1. offence; synonyms (n) guilt, infraction, infringement, misdemeanor, misdemeanour, offense, assault, offensive, umbrage, violation, discourtesy, 2. wound; synonyms (n) bruise, harm, pain, injury, scratch, (v) hurt, cut, damage, offend, injure, stab, sting, insult, maim, bite, 3. injury; synonyms (n) disadvantage, disservice, grievance, detriment, impairment, wound, ill, affront, contusion, evil, lesion, loss, wrong, concussion, (v) abuse; antonyms (n) ability, reparation.
- OБРАЗЛИВИЙ 1. outrageous; synonyms (adj) exorbitant, inordinate, atrocious, furious, monstrous, ridiculous, offensive, gross, excessive, extravagant, absurd, awful, disgusting, dreadful, extortionate; antonyms (adj) sensible, acceptable, 2. offensive; synonyms (adj) foul, distasteful, abusive, aggressive, loathsome, nauseous, coarse, abominable, disagreeable, impertinent, (n) assault, attack, (v) odious, nasty, hateful; antonyms (adj) complimentary, inoffensive, pleasant, defensive, polite, tasteful.
- **ОБРАЗНИЙ** imaginative; *synonyms* (*adj*) creative, ingenious, inventive, original, clever, fanciful, fantastic, resourceful, artistic; *antonyms* (*adj*) unimaginative, logical.
- **ObpA3HUK** offender; *synonyms* (n) culprit, criminal, delinquent, malefactor, convict, crook, felon, wrongdoer, villain, reprobate.
- **οбразність** imagery; synonyms (n) imagination, imaging, portraiture, images, idealism, appearance, descriptions, imaginativeness, imitation, metaphors, resource, resourcefulness, similes, tomography, (adj) image.
- ОБРАЗОТВОРЧИЙ graphic; synonyms (adj) vivid, descriptive, clear, picturesque, realistic, expressive, graphical, lifelike, detailed, (n) picture, diagram, image, schematic, (v) pictorial.
- OБРАНИЙ 1. chosen; synonyms (v) designate, (adj) picked, preferred, select, favored, (n) elect, 2. select; synonyms (v) pick, extract, adopt, choose, excellent,

- prefer, excerpt, assign, opt, appoint, cull, (adj) choice, exclusive, chosen, best; antonym (v) reject.
- **OBPUC 1.** outline; *synonyms* (n) sketch, design, edge, abstract, contour, digest, figure, frame, synopsis, (v) draft, line, form, describe, draw, border, **2.** profile; *synonyms* (n) outline, shape, silhouette, section, ambit, biography, circuit, perimeter, periphery, portrait.
- **οδρί**μ horizon; *synonyms* (n) perspective, prospect, purview, reach, skyline, view, vista, amphitheater, arena, boundary, circle, eyeshot, aspect, distance, panorama.
- OBPOBITOK 1. culture (κультура); synonyms (n) civilization, breeding, cultivation, acculturation, education, learning, tillage, erudition, courtesy, enlightenment, farming, instruction, refinement, agriculture, civilisation, 2. cultivation; synonyms (n) culture, development, growth, gentility, sophistication, finish; antonym (n) neglect.
- **OBPOBKA 1.** working; *synonyms* (*adj*) operative, practical, active, busy, acting, occupied, effective, engaged, (*n*) operation, running, functioning, play, agency, movement, performance; *antonyms* (*adj*) passive, unemployed, **2.** finishing; *synonyms* (*adj*) ending, closing, last, final, ultimate, (*n*) finish, completion, close, conclusion, end, coating, **3.** processing; *synonyms* (*n*) working, refinement, developing, manufacture, dispensation, conversion.
- **ОБРОБЛЮВАНИЙ** cultural; *synonyms* (*adj*) ethnic, educational, enriching, racial, adorning, advancing, artistic, beautifying, beneficial, broadening, civilizing, constructive, corrective, developmental, dignifying.
- **OBPOBJISTM 1.** handle; *synonyms* (v) administer, conduct, feel, wield, control, deal, direct, finger, manage, manipulate, touch, treat, (n) grip, clutch, grasp, **2.** treat; *synonyms* (v) handle, process, heal, nurse, regale, operate, doctor, dress, entertain, (n) feast, delicacy, luxury, tidbit, banquet, entertainment, **3.** process; *synonyms* (n) operation, proceeding, method, procedure, act, course, formula, outgrowth, means, mode, practice, (v) action, function, refine, litigate.
- **Obpy4** band; *synonyms* (*n*) cluster, party, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, (*y*) ring, combine.
- **ΟΕΡΥ ЧИТИСЯ** engage; *synonyms* (*v*) contract, attract, book, employ, absorb, betroth, charter, enlist, retain, draw, engross, hire, involve, lock, mesh; *antonyms* (*v*) fire, disengage.
- **ОБРЯ**Д ceremony; *synonyms* (n) formality, courtesy, celebration, ceremonial, parade, pomp, rite, manners, custom, form, liturgy, magnificence, observance, ritual, service.
- OBCJYFOBYBAHHM 1. waiting; synonyms (adj) ready, expectant, hesitant, (n) wait, abeyance, suspense, expectancy, hold, ambush, delay, postponement, 2. attendance; synonyms (n) presence, attending, audience, turnout, hearing, tendance, attendancy, bodyguard, crowd, gallery, tendment, assemblage, assembly, congregation, draw; antonyms (n) absence, nonattendance, 3. serving; synonyms (n) portion, helping, service, share, piece, help, serve, part, plate, 4. service; synonyms (n) aid, assistance, avail, employment, ministration, ceremony, business,

- occupation, office, utility, (v) overhaul, refit, assist, attendance, repair.
- **ΟΒCJIVFOBYBATM 1.** service; *synonyms* (n) help, aid, assistance, avail, employment, ministration, ceremony, business, occupation, office, (ν) overhaul, serve, refit, assist, attendance, **2.** serve; *synonyms* (ν) act, attend, benefit, do, function, operate, tend, answer, facilitate, go, provide, accommodate, minister, (n) officiate, service.
- OBCJIYЖYBAHHЯ attendance; synonyms (n) presence, attending, audience, turnout, hearing, tendance, attendancy, bodyguard, crowd, gallery, tendment, assemblage, assembly, congregation, draw; antonyms (n) absence, nonattendance.
- oбставина 1. circumstance; synonyms (n) affair, state, accident, chance, event, incident, matter, occasion, opportunity, adventure, casualty, fact, occurrence, juncture, crisis, 2. go; synonyms (v) come, elapse, pass, break, crack, depart, disappear, drive, run, travel, fall, extend, function, (n) fare, (adj) follow, 3. case; synonyms (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, action, (adj) patient, 4. occasion (випадок); synonyms (n) case, episode, happening, motive, circumstance, convenience, (v) cause, create, beget, breed, induce, make, raise, generate, inspire.
- OBCTAHOBKA atmosphere (aTMocdepa); synonyms (n) air, ambience, ambiance, aura, environment, feel, feeling, mood, background, quality, climate, medium, setting, situation, surroundings.
- **ОБСТЕЖЕННЯ** examination; *synonyms* (*n*) audit, check, exam, search, test, consideration, exploration, inquiry, investigation, study, survey, testing, contemplation, analysis, (*adj*) examen.
- **Obctohalh** assertion; synonyms (n) affirmation, argument, statement, claim, allegation, avowal, charge, contention, profession, testimony, accusation, position, announcement, asseveration, averment.
- **ОБСТРІЛЮВАТИ** gun; *synonyms* (n) artillery, gunman, handgun, ordnance, pistol, revolver, shooter, torpedo, accelerator, arrow, gas, (v) shoot, cracker.
- **οδεπ 1.** capacity; *synonyms* (n) capability, aptitude, capacitance, function, intelligence, talent, might, dimension, content, endowment, faculty, gift, measure, position, (adj) ability; *antonyms* (n) inability, incapability, **2.** content; *synonyms* (n) capacity, contentment, matter, meaning, subject, substance, contentedness, (adj) contented, happy, fulfilled, (v) appease, please, satisfy, suffice, delight; *antonyms* (adj) tormented, unhappy, discontented, dissatisfied, rebellious, (v) discontent, upset.
- **ОБТЯЖЛИВИЙ** heavy; *synonyms* (*adj*) dull, deep, dark, dense, fat, full, grave, gross, hard, arduous, bulky, burdensome, grievous, oppressive, thick; *antonyms* (*adj*) light, easy, slim, thin, slight, gentle, puny, skinny.
- **ObTSIXJUBO** heavily, *synonyms* (*adv*) hard, heavy, firmly, grievously, sadly, deeply, closely, thickly, densely, laboriously, substantially, tightly, compactly, droopily, freely.

- **OBTAKYBATU** burden; *synonyms* (n) load, anxiety, pack, strain, bale, care, cargo, concern, core, (v) bother, weight, burthen, clog, trouble, afflict; *antonyms* (v) relieve, unburden.
- OБУМОВЛЕНИЙ 1. given; synonyms (adj) apt, disposed, prone, liable, granted, inclined, set, (n) assumption, particular, presumption, fact, 2. conditional; synonyms (adj) contingent, dependent, qualified, hypothetical, guarded, given, provisional, provisory, subject; antonym (adj) unconditional, 3. conventional; synonyms (adj) formal, orthodox, accepted, common, customary, everyday, conservative, decorous, established, habitual, normal, ordinary, routine, (v) commonplace, familiar; antonyms (adj) unconventional, radical, relaxed, unusual, original, rebellious, unorthodox.
- **OBYMOBJIOBATH 1.** determine; *synonyms* (v) ascertain, decide, define, resolve, appoint, adjudicate, conclude, measure, set, specify, designate, assign, decree, arrange, assess, **2.** specify; *synonyms* (v) name, signify, describe, determine, fix, prescribe, enumerate, mark, characterize, condition, delineate, denote, destine, (n) detail, particularize; *antonym* (v) simplify.
- **обурення** resentment; *synonyms* (*n*) grudge, anger, displeasure, indignation, rage, rancor, umbrage, envy, grievance, passion, animosity, bitterness, fury, gall, hostility; *antonym* (*n*) cheerfulness.
- **обурливий** outrageous; *synonyms* (*adj*) exorbitant, inordinate, atrocious, furious, monstrous, ridiculous, offensive, gross, excessive, extravagant, absurd, awful, disgusting, dreadful, extortionate; *antonyms* (*adj*) sensible, acceptable.
- **обурювати** shock; *synonyms* (n) blow, daze, impact, collision, outrage, surprise, concussion, (v) jar, offend, revolt, startle, appall, clash, disgust, dismay; *antonym* (v) comfort.
- **OBYX** back; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, backward, (*n*) rear, (*adj*) assist, (*v*) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) face, (*v*) front, oppose, advance.
- обчислення 1. calculation; synonyms (n) reckoning, account, analysis, arithmetic, computation, deliberation, discretion, estimate, forecast, anticipation, projection, count, expectation, (v) estimation, (adf) circumspection,
   2. evaluation; synonyms (n) appraisal, assessment, judgment, mark, rating, review, examination, opinion, valuation, choice, score.
- **ОБЧИСЛЮВАТИ** calculate; *synonyms* (v) count, estimate, account, add, appraise, cipher, compute, deem, enumerate, forecast, gauge, guess, make, reckon, consider.
- **OBYMCJIOBAY** computer; *synonyms* (n) calculator, mainframe, machine, reckoner, laptop, computist, estimator, figurer, workstation, analog, brain, clone, compatible, (v) number, program.
- ObinityPHий extensive; synonyms (adj) big, comprehensive, ample, broad, commodious, extended, considerable, copious, large, major, wide, capacious, long, roomy, sweeping; antonyms (adj) narrow, restricted, small, limited, minor, partial, short.

- **Obiliyk** search; *synonyms* (*n*) hunt, pursuit, examination, exploration, inquire, inquiry, inspection, study, (*v*) grope, ransack, rummage, pry, examine, explore, forage.
- **οδιμγκγβατμ 1**. beat; synonyms (v) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (n) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; antonym (v) lose, 2. search; synonyms (n) hunt, pursuit, examination, exploration, inquire, inquiry, inspection, study, (v) grope, ransack, rummage, pry, examine, explore, forage.
- **ОБЩИНА** community; *synonyms* (*n*) association, public, agreement, commune, nation, people, brotherhood, likeness, company, district, order, (*adi*) communal, neighborhood, common, group; *antonym* (*adi*) private.
- **ОБЩИННИЙ** communal; *synonyms* (*adj*) common, civic, joint, mutual, public, social, national, community, shared; *antonyms* (*adj*) private, individual.
- овал balloon; synonyms (n) bubble, (v) ball, inflate, billow, bloat, bulge, distend, soar, swell, fly, expand, increase; antonym (v) deflate.
- OBEH ram (баран); synonyms (n) tup, (v) beat, cram, crash, drive, jam, pack, push, force, fill, bump, pound, press, squeeze, stuff.
- **оволодівати 1**. master; *synonyms* (*n*) captain, instructor, head, boss, leader, gentleman, (*v*) conquer, control, command, defeat, dominate, (*adj*) chief, original, ace, expert, **2**. acquire; *synonyms* (*v*) get, achieve, find, gain, take, accept, attain, buy, collect, contract, earn, obtain, purchase, receive, assume; *antonyms* (*v*) lose, sell
- **OBOU** vegetable; *synonyms* (*n*) plant, vegetive, greens, artifice, cabbage, engender, establish, fix, generate, install, instate, plan, sapling, settle, (*adi*) vegetal.
- **OBOYEBHĬ** vegetable; *synonyms* (n) plant, vegetive, greens, artifice, cabbage, engender, establish, fix, generate, install, instate, plan, sapling, settle, (adj) vegetal.
- **οΒοΨi** vegetable; *synonyms* (n) plant, vegetive, greens, artifice, cabbage, engender, establish, fix, generate, install, instate, plan, sapling, settle, (*adj*) vegetal.
- огида 1. disgust; *synonyms* (*n*) antipathy, abhorrence, abomination, aversion, detestation, dislike, repugnance, hate, hatred, horror, (*v*) sicken, nauseate, shock, distaste, displease; *antonyms* (*n*) attraction, love, (*v*) delight, attract, 2. horror; *synonyms* (*n*) awe, dismay, fear, alarm, fright, repulsion, revulsion, anxiety, apprehension, atrocity, consternation, disgust, dreadfulness, (*adj*) dread, terror; *antonym* (*n*) pleasantness.
- огидний 1. disgusting; synonyms (adj) abominable, detestable, disgustful, distasteful, execrable, foul, loathsome, nasty, odious, offensive, disagreeable, abhorrent, awful, dirty, hateful; antonyms (adj) attractive, pleasant, appealing, 2. nasty; synonyms (adj) disgusting, filthy, mean, coarse, evil, hurtful, obnoxious, raw, repulsive, unpleasant, vile, impure, dangerous, despicable, (adv) beastly; antonyms (adj) agreeable, kind, nice, charitable, lovely, 3. filthy; synonyms (adj) dingy, unclean, squalid, bawdy, grimy, grubby, indecent, muddy, ribald, smutty, sordid, vulgar, lewd, lousy, low;

- antonyms (adj) clean, decent, 4. rank; synonyms (n) range, place, file, gradation, line, degree, quality, (v) arrange, order, class, classify, grade, position, array, group; antonym (adj) fresh.
- **OFABL 1.** review; *synonyms* (n) examination, critique, inspection, retrospect, commentary, comment, parade, magazine, criticism, investigation, (v) check, survey, criticize, examine, inspect, **2.** inspection; *synonyms* (n) review, surveillance, exploration, inquiry, scrutiny, search, study, observation, oversight, sight, supervision, test, view, watch, inquisition, **3.** survey; *synonyms* (n) poll, measurement, digest, look, sketch, estimate, (v) measure, appraise, canvass, prospect, assess, observe, evaluate, overlook, research; *antonym* (v) neglect, **4.** examination; *synonyms* (n) audit, exam, consideration, testing, contemplation, analysis, appraisal, evaluation, inquest, interview, quiz, trial, challenge, (*adi*) examen, (v) visit.
- ОГЛЯДАТИ 1. view; synonyms (n) look, sight, judgment, opinion, scene, idea, outlook, prospect, thought, aspect, (v) regard, observe, see, consider, eye, 2. inspect; synonyms (v) examine, overhaul, overlook, survey, explore, inquire, review, scrutinize, view, watch, monitor, analyze, audit, check, investigate, 3. examine; synonyms (v) assay, try, control, search, ascertain, ask, contemplate, compare, canvass, essay, probe, quiz, study, test, appraise, 4. survey; synonyms (n) poll, measurement, inspection, digest, examination, inquiry, observation, sketch, estimate, assessment, (v) measure, assess, evaluate, inspect, research; antonym (v) neglect, 5. see (бачити); synonyms (v) feel, discover, appreciate, behold, deem, discern, distinguish, know, notice, recognize, apprehend, catch, envision, find, (adj) perceive, **6**. review; **synonyms** (n) critique, retrospect, commentary, comment, parade, magazine, criticism, investigation, journal, outline, (v) criticize, judge, reexamine, revise, recapitulate.
- **ОГЛЯДАЧ** observer; *synonyms* (*n*) beholder, bystander, spectator, witness, eyewitness, onlooker, viewer, watcher, commentator, student.
- OFJISHYTH 1. examine; synonyms (v) assay, audit, consider, overhaul, try, check, control, search, survey, ascertain, ask, contemplate, compare, analyze, canvass, 2. inspect; synonyms (v) examine, overlook, explore, inquire, look, review, scrutinize, view, watch, monitor, investigate, observe, regulate, study, visit.
- оголений 1. naked; synonyms (adj) bald, bare, exposed, nude, open, barren, bleak, raw, unclothed, defenseless, defenceless, undraped, alone, denuded, destitute; antonyms (adj) covered, concealed, 2. bare; synonyms (adj) naked, austere, stark, desolate, devoid, mere, plain, vacant, vacuous, (v) empty, show, disclose, denude, expose, reveal; antonyms (adj) cultivated, ornate, (v) cover, 3. bald (лисий); synonyms (adj) hairless, simple, meager, threadbare, barefaced, dry, forthright, (v) stupid, uninteresting; antonym (adj) hairy.
- OFOJIOCHTH announce; synonyms (v) advertise, herald, declare, enunciate, proclaim, return, affirm, annunciate, broadcast, communicate, foretell, intimate, promulgate, publicize, publish.

- oronoments 1. announcement; synonyms (n) annunciation, notice, advertisement, declaration, communication, proclamation, promulgation, pronouncement, release, report, statement, intimation, bill, ad, assertion, 2. advertisement; synonyms (n) announcement, advert, advertising, circular, publication, advertizement, advertizing, placard, poster, 3. declaration; synonyms (n) affirmation, allegation, avowal, claim, expression, enunciation, acknowledgment, admission, decree, deposition, dictum, predication, confession, bid, account; antonym (n) denial, 4. publication; synonyms (n) book, issue, newspaper, periodical, journal, disclosure, volume, magazine, issuance, bulletin, dissemination, handbook, publishing, brochure, (v) authorship.
- оголошувати 1. announce; *synonyms* (*v*) advertise, herald, declare, enunciate, proclaim, return, affirm, annunciate, broadcast, communicate, foretell, intimate, promulgate, publicize, publish, 2. declare; *synonyms* (*v*) announce, allege, assert, say, attest, acknowledge, admit, aver, avow, call, divulge, express, pronounce, speak, confess; *antonym* (*v*) deny.
- οτοροжа 1. fence; synonyms (n) enclosure, barrier, hurdle, pale, bar, boundary, barricade, fencing, (v) hedge, wall, contend, enclose, parry, quibble, evade, 2. hedge; synonyms (n) fence, hedging, bush, hedgerow, (v) dodge, fudge, elude, skirt, avoid, circumvent, duck, equivocate, pen, border, prevaricate, 3. enclosure; synonyms (n) coop, cage, enclosing, addition, sty, case, envelopment, inclosure, insert, railing, ring, supplement, chamber, 4. pale; synonyms (adj) ghastly, faint, wan, dull, light, pallid, weak, watery, cadaverous, colorless, faded, (v) dim, blanch, (n) confine, bound; antonyms (adj) dark, rosy, strong, brown, 5. rail; synonyms (n) balustrade, handrail, banister, track, path, paling, bolt, course, rails, (v) inveigh, vituperate, fullminate, revile, scold, train.
- одежа 1. Wear; synonyms (v) dress, endure, bear, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, (n) clothing, apparel, attire, clothes, garb, erosion, garment; antonym (v) refresh, 2. clothing; synonyms (n) gear, outfit, threads, habit, wear, (v) vesture, 3. clothes; synonyms (n) wardrobe, thing, gown, toggery.
- O/IEP/KAHH/I 1. receipt; synonyms (n) reception, acceptance, acknowledgment, acquittance, check, recipe, ticket, revenue, certificate, profit, account, invoice, voucher, contrivance, (v) acknowledge; antonym (n) dispatch, 2. reception; synonyms (n) receipt, admission, entertainment, greeting, party, receiving, adoption, getting, salutation, acceptation, comprehension, admittance, inclusion, reaction, (adj)
- OJEPKATH 1. receive; synonyms (v) accept, admit, get, assume, adopt, bear, have, obtain, welcome, make, acknowledge, embrace, gather, greet, take, 2. obtain; synonyms (v) gain, acquire, achieve, attain, earn, accomplish, derive, effect, buy, collect, extract, find, prevail, procure, receive; antonym (v) lose.
- **одержимість 1**. obsession; *synonyms* (*n*) compulsion, fixation, complex, mania, neurosis, rage, fad, passion, addiction, habit, investment, phobia, **2**. possession; *synonyms* (*n*) occupancy, occupation, ownership.

- keeping, goods, property, tenure, grasp, estate, asset, seizin, seizure, tenancy, colony, (v) acquisition.
- одержувати 1. obtain; synonyms (v) gain, acquire, get, have, achieve, attain, earn, accomplish, derive, effect, buy, collect, extract, find, gather; antonym (v) lose, 2. receive; synonyms (v) accept, admit, assume, adopt, bear, obtain, welcome, make, acknowledge, embrace, greet, take, hear, own, realize, 3. get; synonyms (v) become, catch, come, fall, fetch, beget, bring, capture, cause, engage, receive, apprehend, conquer, contrive, arrest; antonyms (v) give, leave, 4. derive; synonyms (v) deduce, stem, deduct, draw, result, conclude, descend, educe, elicit, evolve, infer, originate, reap, spring, clear, 5. resume; synonyms (v) recover, continue, regain, restart, summarize, outline, revert, renew, (n) digest, synopsis, abstract, summary, epitome, recapitulation, review.
- OJEPЖУВАЧ receiver; synonyms (n) recipient, beneficiary, cashier, earpiece, headset, liquidator, collector, phone, telephone, matrass, questor; antonym (n) donor.
- **OДИН 1.** One; *synonyms* (*pron*) any, man, (*n*) anybody, single, somebody, person, ace, (*adj*) certain, individual, lone, only, unique, some, singular, (*adv*) once, **2**. alone; *synonyms* (*adj*) forlorn, lonely, lonesome, all, deserted, unequalled, friendless, separate, (*adv*) solely, apart, entirely, exclusively, individually, separately, (*n*) isolated; *antonym* (*adv*) together, **3**. single; *synonyms* (*adj*) celibate, one, odd, particular, distinct, simple, sole, solitary, exclusive, several, common, discrete, alone, different, (*n*) bachelor; *antonyms* (*adj*) married, double, multiple.
- **одинадцять** eleven; *synonyms* (n) eight, team.
- **ОДИНИЦЯ 1.** unit; *synonyms* (*n*) troop, element, group, squad, aggregate, cell, team, detachment, member, ace, company, component, part, section, (*adj*) one, **2**. one (ОДИН), *synonyms* (*pron*) any, man, (*n*) anybody, single, somebody, person, (*adj*) certain, individual, lone, only, unique, some, singular, particular, (*adv*) once.
- **ОДИНОЧНИЙ** single; *synonyms* (*adj*) only, celibate, one, odd, particular, distinct, individual, isolated, lone, lonely, separate, simple, sole, solitary, exclusive; *antonyms* (*adj*) married, double, multiple.
- OAKPOBEHHЯ revelation; *synonyms* (n) disclosure, discovery, exposure, display, manifestation, revealing, betrayal, apocalypse, expose, inspiration, publication, exhibition, vision, find, (v) revealment.
- **одна** one (Один); *synonyms* (*pron*) any, man, (*n*) anybody, single, somebody, person, ace, (*adj*) certain, individual, lone, only, unique, some, singular, (*adv*) once.
- однак 1. but; synonyms (conj) while, (adv) alone, only, though, barely, however, merely, simply, yet, exclusively, if, just, (prep) besides, except, excluding, 2. however; synonyms (adv) but, although, anyway, nevertheless, how, nonetheless, notwithstanding, anyhow, still, (conj) albeit, even, eventually, (adj) howsoever, 3. yet; synonyms (adv) further, hitherto, unless, always, more, finally, heretofore, till, until, withal, (n) already, (adj) erewhile, 4. nevertheless; synonyms (adv) regardless, (conj) howbeit, nathless, 5. though; synonyms (conj) whereas, (adv) tho', 6. still;

- synonyms (adj) calm, pacify, peaceful, silence, quiescent, serene, silent, appease, (n) hush, (v) quiet, assuage, compose, lull, soothe, allay; antonyms (adj) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, (n) noisy, 7. notwithstanding; synonym (prep) despite.
- однаковий 1. even; synonyms (adv) yet, (adj) direct, equal, constant, equable, equivalent, flat, horizontal, identical, plane, regular, steady, (v) level, balance, smooth; antonyms (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, jagged, unequal. 2. identical: synonyms (adi) corresponding, uniform, consistent, alike, selfsame, similar, very, synonymous, congruent, duplicate, even, exact, like, tantamount, (v) same; antonyms (adj) different, incompatible, 3. equal; synonyms (adj) agree, comparable, adequate, balanced, commensurate, coordinate, (v) match, compare, correspond, parallel, rival, equalize, equate, (n) compeer, peer; antonyms (adj) repressive, disproportionate, unlike, (v) differ, 4. like; synonyms (v) enjoy, care, desire, fancy, wish, savor, appreciate, (adj) analogous, such, akin, (adv) as, (n) love, relish, counterpart, affect; antonym (v) dislike.
- однаково equally; synonyms (adv) alike, as, evenly, also, justly, likewise, similarly, (adj) even, (conj) both; antonym (adv) inconsistently.
- **OJHA4e** nevertheless; *synonyms* (*adv*) however, but, still, though, anyway, anyhow, even, nonetheless, notwithstanding, regardless, withal, eventually, (*conj*) yet, although, howbeit.
- **ОДНЕ** one (ОДИН); *synonyms* (*pron*) any, man, (*n*) anybody, single, somebody, person, ace, (*adj*) certain, individual, lone, only, unique, some, singular, (*adv*) once.
- **OJHI** some; *synonyms* (*adv*) nearly, rather, somewhat, about, approximately, around, roughly, round, almost, near, (*adj*) few, certain, several, (*det*) any, (*n*) one.
- **ОДНОМАНІТНИЙ** uniform; *synonyms* (*adj*) regular, even, constant, steady, equal, consistent, same, equable, homogenous, invariable, level, unchanging, fixed, (*n*) livery, dress; *antonyms* (*adj*) varied, assorted, inconsistent, unequal.
- OДНОРІДНИЙ uniform; synonyms (adj) regular, even, constant, steady, equal, consistent, same, equable, homogenous, invariable, level, unchanging, fixed, (n) livery, dress; antonyms (adj) varied, assorted, inconsistent, unequal.
- **одночасний** simultaneous; *synonyms* (*adj*) coincident, concurrent, coincidental, synchronous, contemporary, synchronal, coinciding, cooccurring; *antonyms* (*adj*) independent, separate.
- OJHOUACHO 1. together (pa30M); synonyms (adv) jointly, conjointly, simultaneously, collectively, running, (adj) united, composed, stable, whole; antonyms (adv) individually, separately, independently, (adj) separate, 2. simultaneously; synonyms (adv) concurrently, directly, meanwhile, meantime, together, once, abreast, along, erst, erstwhile, formerly, forthwith, immediately, instantly, now.
- **одружений** married; *synonyms* (*adj*) marital, wedded, conjugal, matrimonial, connubial, nuptial; *antonyms* (*adj*) single, unmarried.
- **ОДРУЖЕННЯ 1**. wedding; *synonyms* (n) marriage, matrimony, nuptial, nuptials, wedlock, (*adj*) bridal,

- matrimonial; *antonym* (n) divorce, **2**. marriage; *synonyms* (n) wedding, espousal, union, alliance, coupling, bond, (v) match; *antonym* (n) separation.
- **одружувати** marry; *synonyms* (*v*) join, link, conjoin, splice, tie, unite, wive, couple, combine, merge, connect, unify, match, (*n*) espouse, wed; *antonym* (*v*) divorce.
- **ОДРУЖУВАТИСЯ** marry; *synonyms* (*v*) join, link, conjoin, splice, tie, unite, wive, couple, combine, merge, connect, unify, match, (*n*) espouse, wed; *antonym* (*v*) divorce.
- OДУЖАННЯ ГЕСОVETY; synonyms (n) rally, convalescence, improvement, reclamation, rescue, resurrection, retrieval, cure, deliverance, healing, recuperation, restoration, revival, yield, regeneration; antonyms (n) decline, loss, return.
- **ОДУХОТВОРЕНИЙ** spiritual; *synonyms* (*adj*) ghostly, holy, immaterial, religious, incorporeal, pious, divine, ethereal, mental, psychic, metaphysical, intellectual, sacred, supernatural, unworldly; *antonyms* (*adj*) physical, worldly, secular, earthly.
- OGRT 1. clothes; synonyms (n) apparel, attire, clothing, dress, garb, garment, wardrobe, thing, gown, toggery, vesture, wear, 2. clothing; synonyms (n) clothes, gear, outfit, threads, habit, 3. wear; synonyms (v) endure, bear, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, assume, break, don, have, last, stand, exhaust, (n) erosion; antonym (v) refresh, 4. dress; synonyms (n) costume, array, dressing, frock, vest, covering, (v) clothe, rig, trim, adjust, adorn, bandage, cover, deck, decorate; antonym (v) undress, 5. investment; synonyms (n) investing, investiture, siege, finance, venture, backing, obsession, property, installation, outlay, capital, accession, assets, benefaction, business.
- **ОДЯГАТИ** dress; *synonyms* (*n*) attire, costume, apparel, array, dressing, clothes, (*v*) clothe, clothing, garb, rig, trim, adjust, adorn, bandage, cover; *antonym* (*v*) undress
- **ΟДЯГАТИСЯ** dress; *synonyms* (n) attire, costume, apparel, array, dressing, clothes, (v) clothe, clothing, garb, rig, trim, adjust, adorn, bandage, cover; *antonym* (v) undress.
- **ОДЯГНУТИ** dress; *synonyms* (*n*) attire, costume, apparel, array, dressing, clothes, (*v*) clothe, clothing, garb, rig, trim, adjust, adorn, bandage, cover; *antonym* (*v*) undress.
- O3AГЛАВЛЮВАТИ head (голова); synonyms (n) chief, captain, front, point, boss, foam, froth, crown, chieftain, executive, chair, brain, (v) capital, direct, lead; antonyms (n) end, subordinate, (v) follow.
- **ОЗБРОЄННЯ** armour; *synonym* (*v*) armor.
- **озброювати** arm; *synonyms* (n) branch, wing, bay, department, division, limb, might, offshoot, power, section, sleeve, (v) equip, furnish, outfit, provide; *antonym* (v) disarm.
- **ОЗДОБЛЕННЯ** decoration; *synonyms* (*n*) adornment, award, garnish, medal, ornament, embellishment, finery, insignia, ornamentation, trimming, accessory, badge, accolade, distinction, embroidery.
- **o3epo 1**. lake; *synonyms* (n) loch, pond, pool, puddle, carmine, crimson, lin, maroon, plash, slab, tank, basin,

- pink, red, scarlet, **2**. mere; *synonyms* (*adj*) bare, entire, pure, simple, clear, naked, meager, (*n*) lake, downright, tarn, absolute, boundary, stark, lough, (*v*) sheer, **3**. loch; *synonyms* (*n*) bay, inlet, well, looch, lincture.
- O3HAKA 1. characteristic; synonyms (adj) distinctive, individual, typical, original, natural, representative, special, (n) badge, attribute, sign, character, feature, peculiar, peculiarity, point; antonyms (adj) uncharacteristic, common, 2. indication; synonyms (n) clue, evidence, index, designation, direction, mark, forerunner, herald, emblem, gesture, harbinger, hint, reference, cue, allusion, 3. feature; synonyms (n) article, aspect, characteristic, detail, lineament, facet, appearance, fact, particular, quality, distinction, earmark, (v) display, boast, characterize, 4. sign; synonyms (n) signal, indication, motion, portent, brand, imprint, manifestation, omen, poster, presage, wave, augury, banner, (v) indicate, autograph.
- o3Hayath 1. mean; synonyms (v) intend, design, imply, denote, involve, (adj) middle, base, common, hateful, ignoble, medium, miserly, (n) average, contemptible, low; antonyms (adj) generous, kind, 2. indicate; synonyms (v) direct, augur, betoken, designate, mark, show, foretell, foreshadow, argue, bespeak, bode, demonstrate, evince, exhibit, mean, 3. import; synonyms (n) consequence, meaning, sense, effect, connotation, implication, importance, moment, purport, significance, value, intent, magnitude, (v) matter, introduce; antonym (v) export.
- **O3HAYEHHH** definition; *synonyms* (*n*) description, account, explanation, interpretation, limitation, definiteness; *antonym* (*n*) bagginess.
- 030H ozone; synonym (n) air.
- OKA3IЯ occasion (випадок); synonyms (n) case, event, chance, episode, happening, incident, juncture, motive, opportunity, (v) cause, create, beget, breed, induce make
- **OKEAH 1.** Ocean; *synonyms* (n) sea, deep, brine, waves, multitude, lot, heap, pile, puddle, seaway, sink, splash, (adj) oceanic, marine, subaquatic, **2.** main; *synonyms* (adj) chief, grand, great, head, leading, essential, principal, basic, capital, central, first, key, major, (n) cardinal, ocean; *antonyms* (adj) minor, auxiliary, secondary, supplementary.
- **OKHCJIEHHЯ** burning; *synonyms* (*adj*) ardent, ablaze, afire, blazing, boiling, flaming, hot, passionate, aflame, alight, (*n*) combustion, firing, glowing, zealous, burn; *antonyms* (*adj*) cold, cool, trivial.
- **ОКЛАД** salary; *synonyms* (n) wage, pay, allowance, earnings, fee, income, remuneration, payment, emolument, compensation, gain, profit, revenue, hire, reward.
- **OKJIHK** call; *synonyms* (*v*) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (*n*) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; *antonym* (*v*) dismiss.
- **OKO** eye; synonyms (n) optic, opinion, peeper, (ν) behold, see, view, gaze, stare, look, watch, glance, glimpse, examine, eyeball, regard.
- **ОКОЛИЦІ 1.** vicinity; *synonyms* (n) neighborhood, region, district, proximity, place, environs, locality, neighbourhood, vicinage, area, outskirts, section, **2**.

- surroundings; *synonyms* (n) medium, atmosphere, environment, setting, habitat, milieu, scene, ambiance, background, situation, surround, vicinity, ambience, circumstances. locale.
- **ОКОЛИЦЯ** outskirts; *synonyms* (*n*) suburb, edge, periphery, environs, border, fringe, boundary, skirt, precincts, frontier, distance, outpost, outside, slub, slurb.
- окремий 1. separate; synonyms (adj) detached, (v) detach, divorce, part, insulate, scatter, cut, dissociate, disconnect, discrete, discriminate, disjoin, disperse, distinguish, divide; antonyms (adj) connected, joined, simultaneous, (v) unite, merge, mix, combine, fuse, join, link, associate, 2. distinct; synonyms (adj) clear, articulate, different, apparent, definite, distinctive, palpable, decided, dissimilar, marked, plain, tangible, clear-cut, (prep) separate, (adv) apart; antonyms (adj) indistinct, similar, unclear, vague, inaudible, shapeless, 3. individual; synonyms (adj) distinct, particular, single, alone, certain, characteristic, especial, exclusive, singular, (n) human, creature, fellow, man, mortal, person; antonyms (adj) joint, combined, common, communal, general, (n) collective, 4. particular; synonyms (adj) special, fastidious, careful, delicate, exact, finicky, fussy, individual, detailed, choosy, circumstantial, critical, exceptional, (n) detail, item; antonyms (adj) careless, easy, ordinary.
- **OKPEMO 1.** apart; *synonyms* (*adv*) aside, asunder, away, independently, individually, (*adj*) aloof, alone, distant, separate, detached, isolated, only, individual, loose, (*v*) discrete, **2**. separately; *synonyms* (*adv*) apart, severally, singly, respectively, discretely; *antonym* (*adv*) together.
- **окрилювати** wing (крило); *synonyms* (*n*) annex, arm, fender, limb, pinion, flank, extension, pennon, feather, faction, sail, shelter, branch, (*v*) fly, soar.
- **OKPIM** except; *synonyms* (*conj*) but, unless, (*prep*) save, excepting, excluding, (*v*) exclude, demur, omit, exempt, object, reserve, saving, (*n*) bar, without, (*adv*) besides; *antonym* (*v*) include.
- ΟΚΡΥΓ 1. district; synonyms (n) area, quarter, region, community, neighborhood, territory, circuit, county, field, jurisdiction, province, section, domain, (adj) local, (v) zone, 2. county; synonyms (n) state, district, shire, mofussil, constituency, kingdom, count, expanse.
- οκργτα 1. neighbourhood; synonyms (n) locality, neighborhood, vicinity, 2. vicinity; synonyms (n) region, district, proximity, place, environs, neighbourhood, vicinage, area, outskirts, section, 3. district; synonyms (n) quarter, community, territory, circuit, county, field, jurisdiction, province, domain, constituency, country, ground, hemisphere, (adj) local, (v) zone, 4. region; synonyms (n) land, part, realm, division, belt, range, department, expanse, dominion, demesne, direction, extent, position, kingdom, portion.
- **ΟΚΡΥΓ***I* district; *synonyms* (*n*) area, quarter, region, community, neighborhood, territory, circuit, county, field, jurisdiction, province, section, domain, (*adj*) local, (*v*) zone.
- **ОКРУГЛЮВАТИ** round; *synonyms* (*adv*) about, around, (*adj*) circular, plump, entire, chubby, complete, (*n*) circle, bout, ring, beat, circuit, (*v*) compass, turn, gird; *antonyms* (*adj*) slim, sharp.

- OKPYFJISTH round; synonyms (adv) about, around, (adj) circular, plump, entire, chubby, complete, (n) circle, bout, ring, beat, circuit, (v) compass, turn, gird; antonyms (adj) slim, sharp.
- OKCAMHT velvet; synonyms (n) velure, gain, profit, revenue, gratification, income, pleasure, prosperity, receipts, success, vellet, wealth, (adj) velvety, down, opulent.
- **ОКСАМИТОВИЙ** velvet; *synonyms* (n) velure, gain, profit, revenue, gratification, income, pleasure, prosperity, receipts, success, vellet, wealth, (adj) velvety, down, opulent.
- **окуляри 1**. glasses; *synonyms* (*n*) spectacles, eyeglasses, specs, bifocals, monocle, **2**. spectacles; *synonyms* (*n*) glasses, eyewear, visor, () barnacle.
- **ΟΚΥΠΑЦΙЯ** occupation; *synonyms* (n) employment, occupancy, business, craft, calling, job, place, affair, career, conquest, function, line, profession, vocation, (ν) trade; *antonym* (n) surrender.
- **OKYTIYBATH** occupy; *synonyms* (v) hold, have, engage, engross, fill, get, absorb, employ, inhabit, invade, possess, conquer, busy, capture, (n) entertain; *antonym* (v) leave.
- олень deer; synonyms (n) stag, cervid, antelopes, bison, camels, cattle, chevrotains, fox, vixen, giraffes, goats, sheep.
- **олівець** pencil; *synonyms* (*n*) pen, beam, clump, cluster, gleam, group, light, (*v*) brush, draw, design, paint.
- **Ο.ΠΙЯ** Oil; *synonyms* (n) petroleum, fat, ointment, salve, cream, fuel, cerate, lotion, (ν) lubricate, anoint, anele, glycerine.
- **0.10B0** tin; *synonyms* (n) can, canister, container, rhino, dust, blunt, cannister, mopus, mould, (ν) pot, preserve, cure, bottle, embalm, kyanize.
- OЛОВ'ЯНИЙ tin (ОЛОВО); synonyms (n) can, canister, container, rhino, dust, blunt, cannister, mopus, mould, (v) pot, preserve, cure, bottle, embalm, kyanize.
- OJTap altar; synonyms (n) shrine, sacristy, sanctuary.
  OMAHA trick; synonyms (n) deceit, deception, joke, prank, device, dupe, stratagem, (v) swindle, cheat, deceive, fraud, sham, con, mislead, beguile.
- ОНОВЛЕНИЙ new; synonyms (adj) green, modern, novel, original, additional, inexperienced, innovative, raw, recent, strange, unaccustomed, unprecedented, young, (adv) fresh, lately; antonyms (adj) old, familiar, outgoing, second-hand, traditional, used, less, oldfashioned, stale, (adv) past.
- **OHOBJIEHHM** renewal; *synonyms* (n) renaissance, revival, rebirth, reclamation, rehabilitation, renovation, restoration, reform, regeneration, innovation, refurbishment, rebuilding, reconstruction, recovery, reformation.
- **опалення** heating; *synonyms* (n) heat, warming, warm, thawing, burning, enchafing, estrus, fusion, hotness, oestrus, passion, (*adj*) calefactive, calefactory, calorific, calefacient.
- OHAM'STATUCS wake; synonyms (v) awaken, awake, rouse, stir, arouse, excite, provoke, vigil, waken, kindle, (n) train, trail, backwash, track, wave; antonym (v) sleep.

- οπepa opera; synonyms (n) play, drama, operetta, comedy, performance, piece, song, tragedy, afterpiece, ballet, burlesque, burletta, comedietta, divertissement, exode.
- **оперативний** operational; *synonyms* (*adj*) operative, operating, functional, operable, effective, usable, working, available, functioning, prepared, ready, set, useable, going, outfitted.
- oneparop operator; synonyms (n) driver, hustler, manipulator, agent, doer, speculator, actor, employee, clerk, businessperson, captain, financier, floozie, floozy, hooker.
- OHEPAЦІЙНИЙ 1. operating; synonyms (n) operation, exploitation, farming, (adj) running, working, acting, functioning, operative, effective, active, employed, energetic, energical, engaged, loose, 2. operational; synonyms (adj) operating, functional, operable, usable, available, prepared, ready, set, useable, going, outfitted, practicable.
- OΠΕΡΑΙΙΙЯ 1. campaign; synonyms (n) crusade, battle, expedition, movement, struggle, war, cause, drive, effort, (v) fight, course, canvass, run, advertize, agitate,
  2. operation; synonyms (n) execution, act, agency, effect, business, management, action, function, functioning, performance, running, mission, task, job,
- **OHEPYBATU** operate; *synonyms* (v) act, function, run, direct, employ, go, handle, manage, move, perform, proceed, work, maneuver, exercise, fly.
- **OПИРАТИСЯ** resist; *synonyms* (v) repel, rebel, defy, revolt, endure, balk, combat, disobey, impede, protest, refuse, reject, withstand, (n) oppose, confront; *antonyms* (v) surrender, yield, assent.
- **OTHIC** description; *synonyms* (n) account, type, brand, delineation, depiction, explanation, kind, picture, definition, narration, portrayal, recital, report, (adj) class, character
- OHICATH describe; synonyms (v) define, delineate, depict, outline, report, represent, state, draw, relate, qualify, characterize, designate, explain, name, narrate.
- описувати 1. describe; *synonyms* (*v*) define, delineate, depict, outline, report, represent, state, draw, relate, qualify, characterize, designate, explain, name, narrate,
  2. picture (картина); *synonyms* (*n*) photograph, effigy, paint, drawing, likeness, depiction, description, film, (*v*) image, describe, fancy, imagine, copy, envision, figure
- onik burn; synonyms (v) bite, glow, blaze, incinerate, scorch, sting, bake, beam, boil, cremate, flare, ignite, sunburn, (n) fire, (adj) flush; antonym (v) dawdle.
- onika 1. ward; synonyms (n) guard, charge, custody, protection, care, district, neighborhood, quarter, defense, keep, area, region, division, (v) shelter, protect, 2. custody; synonyms (n) detention, confinement, captivity, security, hold, conservation, control, imprisonment, incarceration, keeping, maintenance, preservation, trust, ward, (adj) tutelage; antonyms (n) release, freedom.
- **OIIIKYBAHHЯ** custody; *synonyms* (n) detention, charge, confinement, captivity, care, security, hold, protection, conservation, control, imprisonment,

- incarceration, keeping, maintenance, (v) keep; *antonyms* (n) release, freedom.
- OIIIKYH 1. guardian; synonyms (n) custodian, guard, defender, protector, champion, curator, warden, keeper, patron, shelter, steward, backer, (adj) protective, custodial, tutelary, 2. trustee; synonyms (n) fiduciary, guardian, regent, consignee, questor, receiver, 3. administrator; synonyms (n) executive, director, manager, boss, officer, official, supervisor, governor, principal, ruler, superintendent.
- OHIKYHCTBO custody; synonyms (n) detention, charge, confinement, captivity, care, security, hold, protection, conservation, control, imprisonment, incarceration, keeping, maintenance, (v) keep; antonyms (n) release, freedom.
- onip 1. resistance; synonyms (n) opposition, endurance, friction, immunity, impedance, obstacle, renitency, confrontation, reluctance, stamina, dissent, backlash, (v) rebellion, interference, mutiny; antonyms (n) smoothness, agreement, obedience, susceptibility, 2. opposition; synonyms (n) contrast, conflict, antithesis, contrary, contrariety, antagonism, enemy, hostility, opponent, opposite, competition, contradiction, antagonist, antipathy, aversion; antonym (n) consent, 3. rebellion; synonyms (n) insurrection, revolt, disobedience, uprising, defiance, outbreak, revolution, unrest, commotion, disorder, rebel, disturbance, insurgence, rising, sedition.
- OII.JATA 1. repayment; synonyms (n) recompense, payment, refund, compensation, remuneration, revenge, amends, rebate, reimbursement, retribution, return, reward, reparation, (v) quittance, repay, 2. payment; synonyms (n) pay, bonus, charge, cost, defrayal, expense, installment, deposit, contribution, defrayment, duty, fee, money, price, (adj) penalty; antonym (n) non-payment, 3. render; synonyms (v) afford, interpret, explain, furnish, give, offer, construe, depict, impart, make, provide, translate, vield, cede, concede.
- OПЛАЧЕНИЙ paid; synonyms (v) compensated, (adj) gainful, paying, salaried, nonrecreational, profitable, remunerated, remunerative, mercenary, apaid, compensable, hired, hireling, lucrative, rewarding; antonyms (adj) unpaid, due, owing.
- OII.JAYBAHUЙ paid; synonyms (v) compensated, (adj) gainful, paying, salaried, nonrecreational, profitable, remunerated, remunerative, mercenary, apaid, compensable, hired, hireling, lucrative, rewarding; antonyms (adj) unpaid, due, owing.
- **οππαчувати** pay; *synonyms* (ν) compensate, compensation, liquidate, yield, afford, clear, expend, give, (n) recompense, wage, earnings, fee, salary, allowance, devote; *antonym* (ν) owe.
- оповідання 1. tale; synonyms (n) story, account, narrative, fable, fib, narration, recital, report, fiction, history, legend, lie, relation, yarn, gossip, 2. story; synonyms (n) layer, tale, falsehood, floor, level, novel, stage, storey, explanation, article, description, romance, allegory, loft, rumor; antonym (n) truth, 3. narrative; synonyms (adj) descriptive, graphic, (n) anecdote, chronicle, statement, saga, enumeration, memoir, 4. relation; synonyms (n) connection, affinity, association,

- regard, rehearsal, kin, bearing, bond, reference, relationship, relative, alliance, concern, copulation, (v) rapport
- OHOBIMEHHЯ advertisement; synonyms (n) announcement, declaration, ad, advert, advertising, bill, circular, notice, publication, advertizement, advertizing, placard, poster.
- оподатковувати 1. tax; *synonyms* (n) charge, duty, burden, excise, dues, impost, taxation, (v) assess, task, accuse, impose, load, cess, levy, strain, 2. assess; *synonyms* (v) appraise, evaluate, appreciate, value, estimate, gauge, mark, measure, review, tax, demand, regard, analyze, assay, calculate, 3. impose; *synonyms* (v) force, dictate, enforce, exact, prescribe, clamp, deceive, enjoin, lay, order, set, command, decree, encumber, implement.
- оподаткування 1. imposition; synonyms (n) deception, exaction, cheat, deceit, imposture, trick, demand, hoax, delusion, fraud, infliction, swindle, tax, wile, enforcement, 2. taxation; synonyms (n) revenue, assessment, gross, receipts, accusation.
- **опозиція** opposition; *synonyms* (*n*) contrast, conflict, antithesis, contrary, contrariety, antagonism, enemy, hostility, opponent, opposite, competition, contradiction, antagonist, antipathy, aversion; *antonym* (*n*) consent.
- **OHOHEHT** opponent; *synonyms* (*n*) enemy, antagonist, adversary, competitor, foe, contrary, contestant, foeman, opposition, match, opposer, opposite, rival, challenger, (*adj*) opposing; *antonyms* (*n*) ally, supporter, follower.
- опора 1. stock; synonyms (n) breed, lineage, store, goods, ancestry, descent, family, hoard, origin, race, backlog, birth, (adj) regular, (v) handle, supply, 2. reliance; synonyms (n) confidence, credit, faith, trust, belief, dependence, assurance, conviction, credence, dependency, hope, expectation, presumption, 3. tower; synonyms (n) column, castle, pinnacle, monument, (v) soar, ascend, rise, arise, loom, building, edifice, erection, fabric, hulk, (adj) pillar, 4. rest; synonyms (n) remnant, repose, balance, pause, recess, relaxation, residue, leisure, break, (v) nap, remain, sleep, ease, lie, (adj) remainder; antonym (v) work, 5. support; synonyms (n) help, stand, aid, keep, comfort, maintenance, patronage, (v) assist, prop, back, brace, encourage, maintain, bear, boost; antonyms (n) hindrance, (v) oppose, neglect, undermine, abandon, reject, weaken, 6. stay; synonyms (v) reside, rest, stop, abide, continue, endure, arrest, bide, dwell, support, (n) delay, halt, check, (adj) cease, inhabit; antonyms (v) leave, change, abscond, depart.
- oправа 1. setting; synonyms (n) frame, scene, adjustment, scenery, backdrop, background, mount, position, environment, environs, location, mounting, place, scope, set, 2. rim; synonyms (n) border, edge, margin, brim, brink, boundary, verge, lip, confine, bound, flange, limit, (v) skirt, hem, line, 3. ring (кільце); synonyms (n) encircle, band, gang, jingle, loop, rim, circuit, annulus, (v) circle, call, peal, echo, resound, reverberate, gird.
- **OΠPOMIHIOBAHHЯ** radiation; *synonyms* (*n*) emanation, emission, irradiation, actinotherapy, beam, dissipation, flash, light, divergence, radiotherapy, spread, (*v*) radioactivity, plutonium, radium, (*adj*) radiance.

- OIIPOMIHIOBATH ray; synonyms (n) beam, light, flash, glow, gleam, glimmer, brightness, irradiation, shaft, skate, streak, flicker, (v) irradiate, radiate.
- OHPOTECTOBYBATU protest; synonyms (n) demonstration, objection, complaint, challenge, question, (v) dissent, assert, complain, object, affirm, asseverate, attest, aver, declare, demur; antonym (v) support.
- OHPOTECTYBAHHЯ protest; synonyms (n) demonstration, objection, complaint, challenge, question, (v) dissent, assert, complain, object, affirm, asseverate, attest, aver, declare, demur; antonym (v) support.
- **ОПТИМІЗМ** optimism; *synonyms* (*n*) hopefulness, hope, buoyancy, cheer, cheerfulness, expectation, happiness; *antonym* (*n*) pessimism.
- **оптимістичний** optimistic; *synonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, affirmative, positive, upbeat, bright, carefree, happy, lighthearted, rosy, sanguine, confident, expectant; *antonyms* (*adj*) pessimistic, negative, disheartened.
- **оптичний 1**. optical; *synonyms* (*adj*) optic, visual, ocular, opthalmic, eye, eyeglass, (*n*) perspective, **2**. visual; *synonyms* (*adj*) visible, graphic, optical, seeable, artistic, decorative, diagrammatic, drawn, illustrative, (*n*) visuals, image, picture, design, diagram, figure.
- **оптовий** wholesale; *synonyms* (*adj*) sweeping, extensive, indiscriminate, broad, comprehensive, (*adv*) entirely, all, (*n*) retail, selling, (*v*) sell; *antonym* (*adj*) partial.
- OHYEJIKYBAHHЯ publication; synonyms (n) announcement, book, issue, newspaper, periodical, proclamation, journal, declaration, disclosure, promulgation, volume, circular, magazine, issuance, bulletin
- OHYEJIKYBATH publish; synonyms (v) declare, announce, disclose, circulate, divulge, issue, proclaim, communicate, notify, advertise, broadcast, print, promulgate, spread, expose.
- **ОПУДАЛО** guy; *synonyms* (*n*) boy, lad, cat, fellow, man, bozo, hombre, male, person, rope, tether, band, (*v*) rib, blackguard; *antonym* (*n*) woman.
- OПУКЛИЙ prominent; synonyms (adj) eminent, notable, noted, great, celebrated, distinguished, famous, illustrious, leading, noticeable, obvious, outstanding, salient, striking, (v) conspicuous; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, unknown, minor.
- OHYKJICTL prominence; *synonyms* (n) eminence, hump, importance, protuberance, height, bulge, consequence, distinction, projection, celebrity, fame, moment, bump, extrusion, gibbosity; *antonym* (n) obscurity.
- onyckath 1. lower; synonyms (adj) debase, inferior, (v) degrade, diminish, frown, humble, dip, abase, cut, descend, drop, scowl, disgrace, decrease, (n) depress; antonyms (v) increase, raise, 2. down; synonyms (adv) below, (adj) dejected, depressed, downward, despondent, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, gloomy, (n) feather, fur, fuzz, (v) consume, devour, drink; antonyms (adv) up, (adj) cheerful, happy, upward, 3. sink; synonyms (n) sag, basin, (v) decline, droop, fall, set, fell, bury, collapse, decay, flag, founder, lower, settle, (adj) immerse; antonyms (v) rise, float.

- OHYCKATHCH 1. sink; synonyms (n) sag, basin, (v) decline, dip, droop, fall, set, descend, drop, fell, bury, collapse, decay, flag, founder; antonyms (v) rise, float, 2. lower; synonyms (adj) debase, inferior, less, (v) degrade, diminish, frown, humble, abase, cut, scowl, disgrace, decrease, demean, humiliate, (n) depress; antonyms (v) increase. raise.
- OΠΙΙΙΟΗ option; *synonyms* (n) choice, election, alternative, preference, possibility, selection, volition, refusal, opening, will, likelihood, opportunity, pick, wish, call; *antonyms* (n) essential, necessity, obligation.
- **оранжевий** orange (апельсин); *synonyms* (*adj*) amber, ocher, orangey, orangish, tawny, ginger, red, (*n*) orangeness, lemon, etc, lime, apricot, bittersweet, coral, neach
- **OPATU** till; *synonyms* (*prep*) until, unto, (*n*) drawer, tiller, cashbox, (*v*) cultivate, plow, hoe, farm, dig, turn.
- **OPATOP 1.** speaker; *synonyms* (n) loudspeaker, narrator, orator, president, spokesman, conversationalist, chairman, talker, utterer, principal, **2.** spokesman; *synonyms* (n) mouthpiece, representative, speaker, delegate, interpreter, exponent, proponent, advocate, foreteller, lecturer, mantis, predicter, presenter, prophet, champion.
- op6ira orbit; synonyms (n) circle, cycle, field, orb, area, compass, domain, turn, expanse, course, ambit, circuit, range, reach, realm.
- **οργαμ 1.** organ; *synonyms* (n) instrument, member, limb, agency, harmonium, medium, part, means, journal, channel, **2.** agency; *synonyms* (n) bureau, office, authority, commission, expedient, factor, organ, way, efficiency, activity, board, department, (ν) action, act, deed
- **ΟΡΓΑΗΙ3ΑΙ[I9]** organization; *synonyms* (n) order, establishment, administration, arrangement, formation, association, constitution, institution, structure, system, form, business, company, concern, enterprise.
- **opFaHi3m 1.** organism; *synonyms* (n) being, organization, constitution, animal, life, beast, **2.** organization; *synonyms* (n) order, establishment, administration, arrangement, formation, association, institution, structure, system, form, business, company, concern, enterprise, fabric, **3.** system; *synonyms* (n) method, network, plan, means, process, frame, rule, mode, organisation, procedure, scheme, custom, design, course, fashion.
- **ОРГАНІЗОВАНИЙ** organic; *synonyms* (*adj*) constitutional, natural, constitutive, fundamental, constituent, inherent, structural, whole, raw; *antonym* (*adj*) refined.
- **οργαμί3οΒyΒατμ** organize; *synonyms* (*v*) establish, coordinate, constitute, devise, direct, fix, form, institute, regulate, compose, conduct, engineer, found, make, (*n*) arrange; *antonym* (*v*) disorganize.
- **ΟΡΓΑΗΙЗУΒΑΤИ** organize; *synonyms* (*v*) establish, coordinate, constitute, devise, direct, fix, form, institute, regulate, compose, conduct, engineer, found, make, (*n*) arrange; *antonym* (*v*) disorganize.
- **органічний** organic; *synonyms* (*adj*) constitutional, natural, constitutive, fundamental, constituent, inherent, structural, whole, raw; *antonym* (*adj*) refined.

- OPДЕР 1. warrant; synonyms (n) guarantee, authority, vouch, authorization, security, certificate, commission, (v) permit, license, assure, justify, sanction, ensure, authorize, empower, 2. writ; synonyms (n) command, edict, injunction, order, act, agreement, expression, indictment, law, (v) communicate, (adj) brief, common, concise, epitome, prevalent, 3. order; synonyms (n) decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, instruction, kind, (v) direct, arrange, call, ordain; antonyms (n) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (v) disorder, request.
- **ординарний** ordinary; *synonyms* (*adj*) middling, average, familiar, mediocre, usual, commonplace, everyday, habitual, normal, mean, banal, (*n*) common, customary, accustomed, (*v*) general; *antonyms* (*adj*) extraordinary, unusual, incredible, outstanding, peculiar, strange, special, distinguished, famous.
- **орел** eagle; *synonyms* (*n*) colors, labarum, oriflamb, oriflamme, aviator, flag, pilot, streamer, (*adj*) antelope, chickaree, chipmunk, courser, doe, gazelle, greyhound.
- оренда 1. tenancy; synonyms (n) occupancy, occupation, tenure, possession, tenantry, ownership, use, (adj) shaky, weak, feeble, fragile, halfhearted, questionable, unconvincing, unsubstantiated, 2. lease; synonyms (n) leasing, letting, rental, (v) hire, rent, charter, let, contract, demise, engage, take, give, employ, acquire, allow, 3. demise; synonyms (n) death, decease, collapse, dying, end, passing, release, departure, dissolution, expiration, fall, (v) perish, die, lease; antonyms (n) beginning, birth, 4. hire; synonyms (n) wage, employment, fee, pay, salary, fare, payment, stipend, (v) enlist, retain, commission, compensation, select, book, get; antonym (v) dismiss.
- орендар 1. tenant; synonyms (n) inhabitant, lodger, occupant, resident, holder, occupier, renter, inmate, dweller, householder, (v) inhabit, occupy; antonyms (n) landlord, proprietor, 2. farmer; synonyms (n) countryman, agriculturist, rustic, husbandman, granger, sodbuster, yeoman, producer, sower, woodcutter, agricultor, agronomist, breeder, cob, feeder, 3. holder; synonyms (n) bearer, case, possessor, stand, container, rack, tenant, handle, carrier, bracket, owner, support, vessel.
- орендувати 1. rent; synonyms (n) breach, cleft, fissure, lease, let, crevice, break, crack, tear, hole, flaw, fracture, (v) hire, charter, engage, 2. hire; synonyms (n) wage, employment, fee, pay, salary, fare, (v) employ, enlist, rent, retain, take, commission, compensation, select, book; antonym (v) dismiss, 3. lease; synonyms (n) leasing, letting, rental, (v) contract, demise, give, acquire, allow, buy, consider, convey, get.
- оригінал original; synonyms (adj) first, authentic, native, new, primary, primitive, indigenous, aboriginal, creative, early, fresh, imaginative, inventive, (n) archetype, model; antonyms (adj) commonplace, banal, copied, corny, derivative, hackneyed, well-worn, conventional, resulting, unimaginative, (n) copy, counterfeit, fake, imitation, replica.
- **оригінальний** original; *synonyms* (*adj*) first, authentic, native, new, primary, primitive, indigenous, aboriginal, creative, early, fresh, imaginative, inventive, (*n*)

- archetype, model; *antonyms* (*adj*) commonplace, banal, copied, corny, derivative, hackneyed, well-worn, conventional, resulting, unimaginative, (*n*) copy, counterfeit, fake, imitation, replica.
- **ОРИГІНАЛЬНО** originally; *synonyms* (*adv*) primarily, primitively, firstly, initially, earlier, formerly, essentially, before, creatively, naturally, alternatively, autonomously, connaturally, eccentrically, freely.
- **opichtauis 1.** orientation; *synonyms* (n) bearing, direction, adjustment, course, introduction, instruction, druthers, information, initiation, predilection, preference, temper, training, assimilation, coordination, **2.** finding; *synonyms* (n) decision, detection, determination, discovery, judgment, ruling, verdict, breakthrough, resolution, conclusion, find, analysis.
- OPICHTUP 1. guide; *synonyms* (*n*) escort, directory, attendant, control, usher, chief, (*v*) direct, conduct, govern, drive, channel, bring, advise, cicerone, convey; *antonym* (*v*) follow, 2. mark; *synonyms* (*n*) brand, evidence, score, character, heed, impression, imprint, sign, feature, (*v*) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (*adj*) notice.
- **OPICHTYBAHHЯ** orientation; *synonyms* (*n*) bearing, direction, adjustment, course, introduction, instruction, druthers, information, initiation, predilection, preference, temper, training, assimilation, coordination.
- **opkectp 1**. orchestra; *synonyms* (n) band, minstrelsy, ensemble, group, orchester, orchestre, **2**. band; *synonyms* (n) cluster, party, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, (v) ring, combine.
- **ортодоксальний** orthodox; *synonyms* (*adj*) canonical, conventional, accepted, sound, faithful, conservative, customary, devout, legitimate, regular, proper, right, traditional, usual, honest; *antonyms* (*adj*) unconventional, unorthodox.
- ocaд sediment; synonyms (n) deposit, deposition, lees, dregs, grounds, substance, filth, refuse, residue, settling.
- OCA/I/KYBATH back; synonyms (adv) before, backward, (n) rear, (adj) assist, (v) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; antonyms (n) face, (v) front, oppose, advance.
- **oceita** education; *synonyms* (*n*) training, discipline, instruction, teaching, breeding, background, culture, enlightenment, knowledge, learning, nurture, pedagogy, schooling, literacy, tuition.
- OCBITHTH light; synonyms (adj) fair, clear, facile, easy, faint, flimsy, (n) flame, brightness, daylight, (v) fire, kindle, inflame, glow, ignite, dismount; antonyms (adj) fattening, nauseating, (n) dark, darkness, gloom, shade, night, (v) extinguish, darken, (alt sp) heavy.
- OCBITJEHHЯ 1. lighting; synonyms (n) illumination, light, firing, ignition, kindling, inflammation, brightness, discharge, dismissal, dismission, fire, igniter, ignitor, installation, liberation, 2. light; synonyms (adj) fair, clear, facile, easy, faint, filmsy, (n) flame, daylight, dawn, (v) kindle, inflame, glow, ignite, dismount, illuminate; antonyms (adj) fattening, nauseating, (n) dark, darkness, gloom, shade, night, (v) extinguish, darken, (alt sp) heavy.

- ocbitлювати 1. light; synonyms (adj) fair, clear, facile, easy, faint, flimsy, (n) flame, brightness, daylight, (v) fire, kindle, inflame, glow, ignite, dismount; antonyms (adj) fattening, nauseating, (n) dark, darkness, gloom, shade, night, (v) extinguish, darken, (alt sp) heavy, 2. highlight; synonyms (v) emphasize, accentuate, spotlight, underline, accent, light, stress, underscore, dye, foreground, (n) climax, highlighting, peak, culmination, height, 3. lamp (лампа); synonyms (n) look, beacon, view, glance, alfalfa, glimpse, lucern, (v) behold, regard, perceive, gape, gaze, inspect, observe, recognize.
- OCBITJIOBATHCЯ dawn; synonyms (n) beginning, commencement, aurora, cockcrow, morning, onset, origin, prime, start, sunrise, birth, (v) break, begin, appear, (adj) daybreak; antonyms (n) dusk, sunset, twilight, (v) end, finish.
- **освітній** educational; *synonyms* (*adj*) instructional, informative, cultural, enlightening, elevating, inspiring, uplifting, artistic, civilizing, college, enriching, heartening, helpful, inspirational, intellectual; *antonym* (*adj*) depressing.
- **освічений** educated; *synonyms* (v) instructed, (adj) cultured, erudite, enlightened, learned, lettered, trained, informed, refined, taught; *antonyms* (adj) uneducated, ignorant.
- OCBIYEHICTB education (ocBiTa); synonyms (n) training, discipline, instruction, teaching, breeding, background, culture, enlightenment, knowledge, learning, nurture, pedagogy, schooling, literacy, tuition.
- **OCBSHEHHS** dedication; *synonyms* (n) consecration, allegiance, commitment, devotion, inscription, loyalty, fidelity, sanctification, fanaticism, passion, (*adj*) glorification; *antonym* (n) indifference.
- **OCEJI** residence; *synonyms* (*n*) abode, dwelling, home, house, accommodation, domicile, lodging, occupancy, habitation, mansion, place, manse, abidance, apartment, hall
- OCEJITHCH settle; synonyms (v) fix, place, clarify, establish, pay, regulate, resolve, set, adjudicate, adjust, agree, conclude, decide, determine, (adi) confirm.
- OCEPEAOK cell; synonyms (n) cage, jail, cadre, hole, cave, booth, chamber, compartment, coop, cubicle, den, lair, recess.
- OCIJATH settle; synonyms (v) fix, place, clarify, establish, pay, regulate, resolve, set, adjudicate, adjust, agree, conclude, decide, determine, (adj) confirm.
- OCIHHIM autumn; synonyms (n) fall, declivity, descent, downfall, harvest, cadence, capitulation, cascade, cataract, death, declension, decline, degradation, depreciation, destruction.
- осінь 1. fall (падати); synonyms (v) decline, dip, decrease, descend, dive, rain, diminish, dwindle, sink, alight, (n) drop, descent, downfall, plunge, pitch; antonyms (v) rise, increase, ascend, climb, triumph, win, (n) ascent, 2. autumn; synonyms (n) fall, declivity, harvest, cadence, capitulation, cascade, cataract, death, declension, degradation, depreciation, destruction, downslope, dusk, evenfall.
- **оскаженілий** furious; *synonyms* (*adj*) angry, fierce, violent, enraged, ferocious, frantic, vehement, wild,

- boisterous, frenzied, infuriated, raging, rampant, desperate, angered; *antonym* (adj) calm.
- OCKAPKYBATH appeal; synonyms (n) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (v) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; antonyms (n) unpleasantness, (v) repel.
- OCKBEPHEHHЯ 1. contamination; synonyms (n) contagion, pollution, contaminant, infection, dirtying, corruption, taint, vitiation, adulteration, depravity, (v) defilement; antonym (n) decontamination, 2. pollution; synonyms (n) contamination, filth, befoulment, dirtiness, impurity, infamy, foulness, soiling, disgrace, filthiness, violation, dirt, stain, (adi) backsliding, demoralization.
- **оскільки 1**. as; *synonyms* (*conj*) qua, because, since, considering, while, whilst, (*prep*) during, like, (*adv*) equally, from, (*n*) arsenic, **2**. whereas; *synonyms* (*conj*) though, whenas, where, (*adv*) although, when, then.
- OCKOJIKU 1. chips; synonyms (n) money, coin, sticks, clippings, cuttings, 2. debris; synonyms (n) detritus, junk, refuse, rubbish, trash, waste, garbage, wreck, muck, remains, ruins, scrap, litter, (adi) rubble.
- **ΟCKOJIOK** chip; *synonyms* (n) splinter, bit, flake, chipping, fleck, fragment, microchip, part, scrap, shaving, check, (ν) crack, cut, nick, peel.
- OCЛАБЛЕНИЙ depressed; synonyms (adj) concave, low, blue, dejected, dispirited, down, downcast, downhearted, gloomy, hollow, sad, crestfallen, disappointed, discouraged, flat; antonyms (adj) cheerful, happy, convex.
- **OCJIAGJIEHHЯ** relaxation; *synonyms* (*n*) ease, diversion, amusement, pastime, entertainment, recreation, rest, leisure, comfort, quiet, remission, repose, respite, peace, hobby.
- OCJIAEJISTU relax; synonyms (v) loose, abate, give, lounge, unbend, melt, debilitate, ease, relieve, remit, rest, slack, (n) loosen, release, (adj) relent; antonyms (v) tighten, tense.
- основа 1. basis; synonyms (n) base, foundation, gist, bed, beginning, footing, fundamental, root, cause, cornerstone, derivation, ground, justification, nucleus, reason, 2. base; synonyms (n) basis, leg, (adj) bottom, abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, infamous, (v) found; antonyms (n) summit, top, (adj) noble, 3. foundation; synonyms (n) creation, establishment, foot, institution. principle, origin, support, fundament, grounds, groundwork, initiation, substructure, warrant, construction, core, 4. principle; synonyms (n) method, rule, doctrine, dogma, element, essence, law, precept, tenet, integrity, canon, formula, maxim, nature, postulate, 5. root; synonyms (n) radical, radix, etymon, heart, source, stem, germ, stub, nub, (v) establish, dig, fix, grub, rummage, burrow.
- основний 1. fundamental; synonyms (adj) central, essential, basic, cardinal, key, rudimentary, chief, crucial, elementary, important, indispensable, inherent, (n) base, basis, root; antonyms (adj) minor, (n) secondary,
  2. basic; synonyms (adj) first, initial, primary, primordial, basal, bottom, fundamental, introductory, necessary, plain, primitive, simple, vital, beginning, (n) staple; antonyms (adj) complex, extra, 3. main;

synonyms (adj) grand, great, head, leading, principal, capital, major, paramount, prominent, uppermost, core, (n) ocean, sea, conduit, channel; antonyms (adj) auxiliary, supplementary, 4. principal; synonyms (adj) master, foremost, prime, big, original, dominant, overriding, (n) leader, main, manager, corpus, general, lead, boss, director, 5. chief; synonyms (adj) arch, sovereign, especial, premier, senior, (n) administrator, captain, executive, superior, top, chieftain, commander, patriarch, ruler, supervisor; antonym (adj) associate, 6. capital; synonyms (n) city, stock, assets, cash, funds, means, money, resources, wealth, wherewithal, center, chapiter, (adj) dandy, excellent, exquisite, 7. primary; synonyms (adj) preliminary, primal, aboriginal, primeval, highest, early, direct, elemental, firsthand, opening, ultimate, underlying, earliest, (n) radical, election, 8. ultimate; synonyms (adj) last, conclusive, final, end, supreme, definitive, decisive, extreme, farthest, furthest, eventual, ending, finishing, utmost, (n) maximum, 9. primitive; synonyms (adj) antediluvian, archaic, crude, ancient, antiquated, savage, barbarian, natural, old, native, pristine, rude, indigenous, prehistoric; antonym (adj) modern, 10. underlying.

- oco6a 1. person; synonyms (n) fellow, human, individual, man, being, body, character, creature, mortal, soul, life, homo, form, organism, (v) party; antonym (n) automaton, 2. individual; synonyms (adj) distinct, particular, single, different, alone, certain, characteristic, distinctive, especial, exclusive, singular, sole, solitary, special, (n) person; antonyms (adj) joint, combined, common, communal, general, vague, (n) collective.
- особистий 1. private; synonyms (adj) clandestine, confidential, personal, covert, hidden, individual, secret, inner, esoteric, exclusive, intimate, particular, domestic, interior, (v) close; antonyms (adj) public, communal, community, nationalized, official, state-owned, civic, shared, state, 2. individual; synonyms (adj) distinct, single, different, alone, certain, characteristic, distinctive, especial, singular, (n) human, creature, fellow, man, mortal, person; antonyms (adj) joint, combined, common, general, vague, (n) collective, 3. intimate; synonyms (adj) informal, internal, bosom, friendly, near, (v) express, allude, hint, imply, indicate, insinuate, suggest, (n) familiar, confidante, (adv) dear; antonym (adj) distant, 4. personal; synonyms (adj) own, peculiar, private, direct, proper, subjective, physical, original, privy, several, specific, special, 5. peculiar; synonyms (adj) odd, exceptional, anomalous, curious, eccentric, extraordinary, abnormal, bizarre, fantastic, irregular, strange, appropriate, funny, idiosyncratic, quaint; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, typical.
- **οcoδистість 1.** personality; *synonyms* (n) individuality, person, celebrity, character, identity, nature, characteristic, disposition, temperament, essence, individualism, name, being, distinctiveness, self; *antonym* (n) nobody, **2.** person; *synonyms* (n) fellow, human, individual, man, body, creature, mortal, soul, life, homo, form, organism, personality, somebody, (ν) party; *antonym* (n) automaton.
- **особисто 1**. bodily; *synonyms* (*adj*) corporeal, material, physical, animal, carnal, corporal, personal, real,

- sensual, somatic, (adv) altogether, fleshly; antonyms (adj) mental, spiritual, 2. personally; synonyms (adv) individually, directly, confidentially, intimately, privately, specially, well, secretly, separately, closely, individualistically, instinctively, intuitively, narrowly, particularly.
- особливий 1. special; synonyms (adj) particular, especial, individual, limited, rare, different, distinguished, distinct, express, certain, distinctive, exceptional, extra, extraordinary, (adv) apart; antonym (adj) ordinary, 2. extra; synonyms (adj) additional, over, odd, auxiliary, (adv) more, especially, (n) supplement, accessory, excess, plus, supernumerary, addendum, addition, duplicate, (v) additive; antonyms (adj) basic, less, (n) lack, 3. particular; synonyms (adj) special, fastidious, careful, definite, delicate, exact, finicky, fussy, detailed, choosy, circumstantial, critical, finical, (n) detail, item; antonyms (adj) careless, easy, vague, (n) general, 4. peculiar; synonyms (adj) anomalous, characteristic, curious, eccentric, abnormal, bizarre, fantastic, irregular, personal, proper, singular, strange, appropriate, exclusive, funny; antonyms (adj) normal, typical, 5. distinct; synonyms (adj) clear, articulate, discrete, apparent, palpable, decided, dissimilar, marked, plain, tangible, clear-cut, audible, conspicuous, diverse, (prep) separate; antonyms (adj) indistinct, similar, unclear, inaudible, shapeless, 6. specific; synonyms (adj) concrete, peculiar, precise, positive, accurate, single, explicit, fixed, unique, set, several, unambiguous, noteworthy, respective, (n) fact; antonym (adj) universal.
- особливість 1. characteristic; synonyms (adj) distinctive, individual, typical, original, natural, representative, special, (n) badge, attribute, sign, character, feature, peculiar, peculiarity, point; antonyms (adj) uncharacteristic, common, 2. feature; synonyms (n) article, aspect, characteristic, detail, lineament, facet, appearance, fact, mark, particular, quality, distinction, earmark, (v) display, boast.
- **особливо 1.** particularly; *synonyms* (*adv*) especially, specially, only, chiefly, curiously, expressly, markedly, notably, peculiarly, principally, singly, very, individually, definitely, distinctly; *antonym* (*adv*) slightly, **2.** especially; *synonyms* (*adv*) exceedingly, particularly, namely, exceptionally, extra, extraordinarily, primarily, remarkably, specifically, unusually, **3.** specially; *synonym* (*adv*) personally.
- особняк 1. mansion; synonyms (n) house, castle, manor, residence, home, building, hall, palace, villa, abode, place, domicile, habitation, manse; antonym (n) hovel,

   2. palace; synonyms (n) court, mansion, chateau.
- осоромлювати humble; synonyms (adj) base, docile, low, lowly, modest, unassuming, baseborn, (v) degrade, demean, disgrace, abase, debase, humiliate, mortify, conquer; antonyms (adj) grand, arrogant, conceited, haughty, imposing, impressive, pompous, snooty.
- OCHOPHOBATH challenge; synonyms (n) question, defiance, protest, contest, (v) defy, dare, brave, dispute, ask, call, charge, contradict, demur, deny, doubt; antonym (v) obey.

- **OCTAHKU** remains; *synonyms* (n) cadaver, corpse, debris, relic, remainder, body, carcass, trace, clay, dregs, residue, rest, vestige, relics, (adj) remnant.
- останній 1. last; synonyms (v) endure, continue, hold, exist, live, dwell, (n) abide, conclusion, (adj) extreme, closing, final, ultimate, conclusive, concluding, farthest; antonyms (n) opening, (adj) first, 2. ultimate; synonyms (adj) last, end, supreme, definitive, decisive, elemental, furthest, eventual, primary, ending, finishing, top, utmost, absolute, (n) maximum, 3. latter; synonyms (adj) later, terminal, following, posterior, recent, past, last-mentioned; antonym (n) former, 4. final; synonyms (adj) definite, latter, irrevocable, decided, net, peremptory, firm, dying, finished, fixed, hindmost, parting, resolved, unconditional, utter; antonym (adj) preliminary.
- остаточний 1. definitive; synonyms (adj) conclusive, decisive, definite, last, authoritative, eventual, final, explicit, categorical, critical, determinate, express, (v) decided, absolute, emphatic, 2. decided; synonyms (v) clear, positive, marked, settled, (adj) determined, distinct, resolute, unmistakable, fixed, peremptory, unequivocal, certain, finished, firm, stark; antonym (adj) undecided, 3. eventual; synonyms (adj) terminal, prospective, ultimate, future, likely, probable, latter, potential, coming, forthcoming, indirect, secondary, vicarious, approaching, concluding, 4. final; synonyms (adj) extreme, definitive, irrevocable, net, dying, ending, hindmost, later, parting, resolved, supreme, unconditional, utmost, utter, back; antonyms (adj) first, opening, preliminary.
- **OCTATOHHO** finally; *synonyms* (*adv*) eventually, lastly, last, ultimately, definitely, completely, (*adj*) final, (*v*) definitively; *antonym* (*adv*) firstly.
- octaua 1. residual; synonyms (adj) remaining, leftover, residuary, (n) remnant, residue, balance, remainder, rest, difference, residuum, 2. remainder; synonyms (n) excess, remain, end, overplus, oddment, leftovers, relic, remains, remnants, residual, scrap, surplus, ease, relics, 3. surplus; synonyms (adj) extra, superfluous, odd, redundant, spare, unnecessary, plus, (n) overabundance, surfeit, glut, overflow, plethora, abundance, nimiety, (adv) over; antonyms (n) necessary, lack, shortage, scarcity.
- OCTOB skeleton; *synonyms* (n) carcass, frame, framework, sketch, bones, anatomy, body, outline, scaffold, cadaver, chassis, corpse, plan, shell, (v) draft.
- **octopora** caution; *synonyms* (n) advice, carefulness, precaution, vigilance, wariness, warning, admonition, attention, caveat, circumspection, counsel, (v) care, warn, admonish, advise; *antonyms* (n) recklessness, carelessness. rashness.
- **OCTOPOH6** apart; *synonyms* (*adv*) aside, asunder, away, independently, individually, (*adj*) aloof, alone, distant, separate, detached, isolated, only, individual, loose, (*v*) discrete.
- **острів** island; *synonyms* (n) reef, aisle, egg, inch, (v) isle, insulate, isolate, segregate, sequester, separate.
- **OCYIIIYBAHHЯ** drainage; *synonyms* (*n*) drain, drive, emanation, tapping, hydrography, (*adj*) arefaction, dephlegmation.

- ocyшувати drain; synonyms (n) ditch, culvert, dike, channel, sewer, (v) deplete, waste, exhaust, bleed, leak, consume, finish, sap, (adj) cloaca, dissipate; antonym (v) holster
- OCL 1. here; synonyms (adv) hither, in, about, arrived, available, indoors, inwards, (n) hair, (adj) present, there, near, nearby, (pron) her, their; antonym (adv) out, 2. there; synonyms (adv) here, thither, thereat, apparent, convenient, visible, around, (adj) adept, competent, expert, professional, reliable, skillful, trustworthy, unfailing.
- **OT** here; *synonyms* (*adv*) hither, in, about, arrived, available, indoors, inwards, (*n*) hair, (*adj*) present, there, near, nearby, (*pron*) her, their; *antonym* (*adv*) out.
- **otbip 1**. opening; synonyms (n) gap, mouth, aperture, break, beginning, cleft, commencement, crack, door, entrance, hole, occasion, chasm, onset, (adj) preliminary; antonyms (n) end, closing, exit, finale, (adj) final, 2. bore; synonyms (v) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (n) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (adj) pother; antonyms (v) interest, excite, fascinate, 3. break; synonyms (v) split, burst, fail, infringe, leak, tear, (n) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; antonyms (v) repair, obey, honor, mend, (n) continuation, 4. hole; synonyms (n) cavity, den, pocket, burrow, cave, corner, depression, fix, hollow, lair, pit, vent, cavern, cranny, cell, 5. port; synonyms (n) harbor, haven, asylum, carriage, demeanor, pier, mien, bearing, deportment, dock, embrasure, gate, harbour, (adj) larboard, left; antonym (n) starboard.
- Oтець father (батько); synonyms (n) begetter, dad, sire, creator, abba, beginner, forefather, founder, padre, patriarch, author, (v) beget, engender, create, generate; antonym (n) mother.
- отже 1. thus; synonyms (adv) therefore, then, consequently, so, hence, accordingly, thence, ergo, thusly, 2. consequently; synonyms (adv) naturally, subsequently, thus, 3. so; synonyms (adv) as, indeed, insomuch, also, wherefore, (n) sol, (pron) that, (adj) likewise, 4. hence; synonyms (adv) away, because, for, whence, 5. therefore; synonym (conj) since.
- **ототожнення** identification; *synonyms* (*n*) designation, finding, id, identity, mark, naming, papers, remembering, badge, recognition, denomination.
- **ОТОТОЖНЮВАТИ** identify; *synonyms* (*v*) distinguish, detect, discover, name, ascertain, find, know, mark, pinpoint, place, recognize, see, spot, tell, describe.
- оточення 1. setting; synonyms (n) frame, scene, adjustment, scenery, backdrop, background, mount, position, environment, environs, location, mounting, place, scope, set, 2. environment; synonyms (n) circumstance, habitat, atmosphere, context, setting, surroundings, vicinity, ecology, element, circumstances, medium, home, nature, air, ambiance, 3. surroundings; synonyms (n) neighborhood, milieu, situation, surround, ambience, locale.
- **OTPUMAHHЯ** receiving; *synonyms* (*adj*) accepting, admitting, recipient, acceptant, liberal, suscipient, (*n*) receipt, getting, reception, acceptance, taking,

- recipiency, delivery, receptiveness, unloading; *antonym* (n) dispatch.
- **οτρημηγβατη 1**. receive; *synonyms* (ν) accept, admit, get, assume, adopt, bear, have, obtain, welcome, make, acknowledge, embrace, gather, greet, take, **2**. get; *synonyms* (ν) acquire, gain, attain, become, catch, earn, buy, come, fall, fetch, achieve, beget, bring, capture, cause; *antonyms* (ν) lose, give, leave, **3**. obtain; *synonyms* (ν) accomplish, derive, effect, collect, extract, find, prevail, procure, receive, extort, compass, contract, carry, draw, enlist.
- **ОТРИМУВАЧ** receiver; *synonyms* (n) recipient, beneficiary, cashier, earpiece, headset, liquidator, collector, phone, telephone, matrass, questor; *antonym* (n) donor.
- OTPYÏTII poison (отрута); synonyms (n) bane, toxin, (v) infect, contaminate, envenom, defile, drug, empoison, taint, intoxicate, canker, corrupt, pollute, (adj) poisonous, toxic; antonym (n) antidote.
- otpyta 1. poison; synonyms (n) bane, toxin, (v) infect, contaminate, envenom, defile, drug, empoison, taint, intoxicate, canker, corrupt, pollute, (adj) poisonous, toxic; antonym (n) antidote, 2. virus; synonyms (n) bug, infection, germ, poison, venom, microbe, disease, bacteria, microorganism, pest, plague.
- **отруювати** poison (отрута); *synonyms* (*n*) bane, toxin, (*v*) infect, contaminate, envenom, defile, drug, empoison, taint, intoxicate, canker, corrupt, pollute, (*adj*) poisonous, toxic; *antonym* (*n*) antidote.
- **OΦIC** office; *synonyms* (n) charge, agency, duty, function, position, commission, appointment, division, authority, berth, bureau, job, part, place, post.
- **oфinep** officer; *synonyms* (n) captain, administrator, commander, bureaucrat, executive, officeholder, official, agent, manager, leader, policeman, representative, skipper, supervisor.
- oфiцiaнт waiter; synonyms (n) server, attendant, salver, servant, tray, bridegroom, disposition, groom, habit, host, kidney, kind, sort, flunky.
- офіційний 1. official; synonyms (adj) formal, functional, regular, proper, sanctioned, magisterial, (n) officer, minister, bureaucrat, executive, functionary, administrator, (v) authoritative, administrative, authentic; antonyms (adj) unofficial, private, illegal, informal, 2. formal; synonyms (adj) conventional, ceremonious, distant, ceremonial, courtly, elegant, official, prim, solemn, stately, cold, nominal, pedantic, precise, stiff; antonyms (adj) relaxed, unceremonious.
- офіційно officially; synonyms (adv) formally, apparently, evidently, lawfully, legally, ostensibly, outwardly, strictly, theoretically, exactly, legitimately, precisely, properly; antonym (adv) unofficially.
- **Охайний 1.** tidy; *synonyms* (*adj*) clean, neat, trim, spruce, natty, orderly, respectable, shipshape, goodish, methodical, (*v*) clear, arrange, straighten, groom, neaten; *antonyms* (*adj*) untidy, disheveled, knotted, **2.** neat; *synonyms* (*adj*) adroit, elegant, tidy, graceful, dainty, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, nifty, pretty, pure, straight, felicitous, (*v*) compact; *antonyms* (*adj*) messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered.

- OXAŬHO neatly; *synonyms* (*adv*) adroitly, cleanly, gracefully, dexterously, fitly, nattily, tastefully, aptly, elegantly, prettily, cleverly, closely, comptly, deftly, (*adj*) nimbly; *antonyms* (*adv*) messily, shabbily, untidily.
- **ОХОЛОДЖУВАТИ** COOl; *synonyms* (*adj*) chilly, cold, collected, composed, fine, aloof, apathetic, lukewarm, (*v*) calm, chill, assuage, allay, pacify, (*n*) composure, poise; *antonyms* (*adj*) agitated, hot, excited, enthusiastic, feverish, friendly, temperate, tepid, (*v*) warm, heat.
- OXOЛОДИТИ cool; synonyms (adj) chilly, cold, collected, composed, fine, aloof, apathetic, lukewarm, (v) calm, chill, assuage, allay, pacify, (n) composure, poise; antonyms (adj) agitated, hot, excited, enthusiastic, feverish, friendly, temperate, tepid, (v) warm, heat.
- **ΟΧΟΠΗΤΗ** overcome; *synonyms* (*v*) conquer, beat, crush, subdue, vanquish, defeat, master, overpower, hurdle, overwhelm, prevail, subjugate, surmount, demolish, (*adj*) beaten; *antonyms* (*v*) fail, (*adj*) victorious, unimpressed.
- OXOII.TEHHS 1. incidence; synonyms (n) occurrence, commonness, incidency, pervasiveness, attack, bout, event, existence, popularity, regularity, spell, 2. coverage; synonyms (n) area, scope, span, extent, insurance, reportage, reporting, compensation, range, size, disclosure, extensiveness, increase, publicity, revelation, 3. comprehension; synonyms (n) apprehension, conception, grasp, inclusion, intelligence, knowledge, understanding, wit, capacity, familiarity, acumen, appreciation, discernment, insight, notion; antonyms (n) misunderstanding, incomprehension.
- OXOII.JIOBATU 1. cover; synonyms (v) coat, conceal, top, bury, cloak, (n) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield; antonyms (v) reveal, expose, uncover, 2. lap; synonyms (n) circle, circuit, fold, coil, knee, orbit, (v) lick, overlap, bind, (adv) compass, encircle, encompass, embrace, enclose, beset.
- OXOII.IIOIOЧИЙ comprehensive; synonyms (adj) capacious, broad, extensive, inclusive, complete, detailed, exhaustive, full, large, overall, sweeping, thorough, total, universal, wide; antonyms (adj) narrow, partial, noncomprehensive, restricted.
- oxopoha 1. guard; synonyms (n) defend, defense, bulwark, care, cover, escort, protection, watchman, custody, convoy, defence, fender, guardsman, (v) shield, keep, 2. protection (захист); synonyms (n) conservation, guardianship, security, shelter, aegis, auspices, preservation, hedge, charge, keeping, lee, patronage, precaution, safeguard, (v) guard; antonym (n) destruction, 3. custody; synonyms (n) detention, confinement, captivity, hold, control, imprisonment, incarceration, maintenance, trust, ward, clasp, clutches, custodianship, (adj) tutelage; antonyms (n) release, freedom, 4. keeping; synonyms (n) holding, observance, retention, safekeeping, coloring; antonym (n) end.
- **Охоронець** guardian; *synonyms* (*n*) custodian, guard, defender, protector, champion, curator, warden, keeper, patron, shelter, steward, backer, (*adj*) protective, custodial, tutelary.
- **охороняти 1**. guard; *synonyms* (*n*) defend, defense, bulwark, care, cover, escort, protection, watchman,

- custody, convoy, defence, fender, guardsman, (v) shield, keep, 2. defend; synonyms (v) guard, assert, justify, protect, advocate, champion, maintain, support, apologize, hold, preserve, safeguard, shelter, uphold, vindicate; antonyms (v) attack, prosecute, 3. protect; synonyms (v) hide, conceal, conserve, save, screen, insure, cushion, patronize, shade, ensure, fence, guarantee, insulate, bless, (n) ward; antonyms (v) expose, neglect, risk, 4. watch; synonyms (v) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, check, follow, mind, (n) view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, lookout, (adj) vigilance, 5. preserve; synonyms (v) cure, pickle, perpetuate, continue, retain, sustain, economise, economize, husband, deliver, (n) jam, jelly, conserves, marmalade, reserve; antonym (v) destroy.
- OXOTA appetite; *synonyms* (n) desire, appetence, appetency, relish, craving, gusto, inclination, liking, passion, stomach, taste, thirst, want, appetition, (v) demand; *antonym* (n) dislike.
- oxoue 1. readily; synonyms (adv) lightly, easily, promptly, soon, quick, freely, gladly, quickly, cheerfully, eagerly, pronto, willingly, commonly, naturally, (adj) smoothly,
  2. soon; synonyms (adv) shortly, early, presently, anon, immediately, directly, betimes, now, soonly, briefly, erelong, fast, speedily, afterward, curtly.
- охочий willing; synonyms (adj) agreeable, disposed, ready, spontaneous, voluntary, amenable, inclined, prepared, enthusiastic, unforced, consenting, obliging, content, desirous, game; antonyms (adj) unwilling, reluctant.
- **ОЦІНИТИ** evaluate; *synonyms* (v) appraise, assess, calculate, gauge, estimate, value, grade, measure, rank, reckon, review, weigh, assay, esteem, regard.
- **оцінка 1**. valuation; synonyms (n) estimation, appraisal, evaluation, estimate, appraisement, assessment, appreciation, rating, measurement, prize, value, worth, admeasurement, mensuration, (v) price, 2. appraisal; synonyms (n) review, valuation, examination, judgment, assay, check, 3. evaluation; synonyms (n) mark, opinion, analysis, choice, score, 4. estimate; synonyms (n) calculation, (v) compute, consider, count, esteem, guess, weigh, account, appraise, assess, computation, conjecture, forecast, gauge, reckon; antonym (v) calculate, 5. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, regard, tale, description, explanation, history, narration, reason, recital, story, tab, tally, (v) report, 6. appreciation; synonyms (n) admiration, acknowledgment, approval, awareness, conception, feeling, grasp, praise, recognition, respect, taste, understanding, adoration, wonder, (v) sense; antonym (n) depreciation.
- **OUTHOBAHHЯ** evaluation; *synonyms* (n) appraisal, assessment, estimation, judgment, mark, rating, review, estimate, examination, opinion, valuation, analysis, choice, score.
- **оцінювати 1**. evaluate; *synonyms* (*v*) appraise, assess, calculate, gauge, estimate, value, grade, measure, rank, reckon, review, weigh, assay, esteem, regard, **2**. estimate; *synonyms* (*n*) calculation, appraisal, assessment, (*v*) compute, consider, count, guess, account, computation, conjecture, estimation, forecast,

- appraisement, appreciate, approximate, 3. rate; synonyms (n) price, worth, pace, percentage, charge, frequency, gait, proportion, (v) evaluate, merit, put, prize, deserve, order, place, 4. value (Baptictb); synonyms (n) cost, importance, rate, consequence, usefulness, import, utility, use, profit, amount, (v) cherish, respect, revere, treasure, survey; antonyms (n) disadvantage, futility, uselessness, insignificance, 5. assess; synonyms (v) mark, tax, demand, analyze, determine, examine, judge, lay, valuate, balance, test, 6. price; synonyms (n) expense, figure, damage, fee, payment, toll, expenditure, quotation, quote, reward, excellence, terms, (v) doom, (adi) desert.
- **ОЧЕВИДЕЦЬ** witness; *synonyms* (*n*) spectator, testimony, bystander, eyewitness, onlooker, evidence, observer, testifier, beholder, proof, (*v*) attest, observe, notice, see, view; *antonym* (*n*) participant.
- очевидний 1. evident; synonyms (adj) apparent, obvious, distinct, clear, conspicuous, discernible, manifest, patent, plain, noticeable, open, certain, bright, marked, palpable; antonyms (adj) unclear, concealed, obscure, unnoticed, hidden, inconspicuous, 2. obvious; synonyms (adj) visible, evident, flagrant, blatant, glaring, perceptible, undeniable, unmistakable, definite, explicit, gross, indisputable, indubitable, lucid, overt; antonyms (adj) imperceptible, undetectable, slight, subtle, 3. apparent; synonyms (adj) ostensible, outward, specious, superficial, broad, external, surface, alleged, appreciable, frank, perspicuous, presumable, presumptive, seeming, supposed; antonyms (adj) real, mysterious, 4. plain; synonyms (adj) ordinary, comprehensible, intelligible, downright, easy, homely, humble, level, simple, outspoken, direct, dull, even, natural, (n) flat; antonyms (adj) elaborate, fancy, mottled, multicolored, ornate, attractive, confused, fussy, two-colored, 5. visible; synonyms (adj) observable, visual, transparent, physical, seeable; antonym (adj) invisible, 6. overt; synonyms (adj) barefaced, naked, public, unconcealed; antonyms (adj) camouflaged, covert, indirect, 7. transparent; synonyms (adj) diaphanous, luminous, filmy, limpid, sheer, crystalline, gauzy, pellucid, gossamer, thin, guileless, translucent, pure, light, glassy; antonyms (adj) opaque, solid, 8. patent (патент); synonyms (n) charter, (adi) tangible, unquestionable,
- OЧЕВИДНІСТЬ evidence; *synonyms* (n) confirmation, mark, proof, data, argument, attestation, demonstration, sign, testimony, clue, (v) display, demonstrate, attest, certify, manifest.
- очевидно 1. apparently; synonyms (adv) seemingly, clearly, evidently, manifestly, obviously, ostensibly, patently, allegedly, noticeably, plain, plainly, presumably, probably, supposedly, visibly, 2. clearly; synonyms (adv) apparently, decidedly, distinctly, clear, definitely, explicitly, simply, specifically, understandably, intelligibly, surely, certainly, easily, absolutely, demonstrably; antonyms (adv) indistinctly, vaguely, blurrily, imperceptibly, obscurely, unclearly, doubtfully, imperfectly, softly, 3. obviously; synonyms (adv) markedly, naturally, openly, unambiguously, unmistakably; antonyms (adv)

- unnoticeably, undetectably, **4**. evidently; *synonym* (*adv*) palpably, **5**. seemingly; *synonym* (*adv*) outwardly.
- Ouepet 1. reed; synonyms (n) triangle, xylophone, arrow, pipe, dart, stalk, fistula, javelin, jereed, jerid, lance, pen, pike, spear, (adj) thread, 2. rush; synonyms (n) hurry, charge, flood, flow, attack, (v) dash, gush, race, run, speed, hasten, stream, quicken, (adj) burst, spurt.
- очищення 1. clearance; synonyms (n) clearing, clearage, disposal, headroom, settlement, acquittance, authorization, license, permit, room, acquittal; antonyms (n) blockage, retention, 2. cleaning; synonyms (n) cleansing, purge, purification, cleanup, separation, thin, refinement, wash, afterbirth, attack, clearout, crackdown, dedusting, degreasing, detersion.
- очікуваний 1. coming; synonyms (v) instant, (adj) approaching, forthcoming, future, imminent, impending, following, (n) access, advent, approach, appearance, arrival, return, arrive, come; antonym (n) departure, 2. due; synonyms (adj) appropriate, equitable, just, lawful, owed, payable, unpaid, unsettled, (adv) right, (v) owing, (n) debt, duty, privilege, tax, desert; antonyms (adj) paid, undue.
- очікування 1. expectancy; synonyms (n) expectance, anticipation, expectation, hope, suspense, prospect, reversion, 2. wait (чекати); synonyms (v) expect, anticipate, stop, ambush, await, lurk, stay, linger, remain, abide, hesitate, (n) delay, pause, hold, (adj) tarry, 3. expectation; synonyms (n) expectancy, belief, confidence, outlook, possibility, trust, faith, forecast, probability, thought, optimism; antonym (n) despair.
- Очікувати 1. wait (чекати); synonyms (v) expect, anticipate, stop, ambush, await, lurk, stay, linger, remain, abide, hesitate, (n) delay, pause, hold, (adj) tarry,
  2. expect; synonyms (v) assume, believe, demand, understand, calculate, hope, suppose, think, conceive, call, mean, ask, bear, carry, conjecture,
  3. hope (надія, сподівання); synonyms (v) trust, confide, wish, look, (n) aspiration, belief, desire, expectation, faith, anticipation, confidence, expectancy, assurance, ambition, fancy; antonyms (v) despair, (n) reality,
  4. anticipate; synonyms (v) antedate, forecast, forestall, foretell, estimate, apprehend, divine, guess, predict, presume, prevent, intercept, envision, forebode, foreknow.
- **Очко 1**. ace; *synonyms* (*n*) expert, one, virtuoso, wizard, adept, master, star, (*adj*) crack, dot, iota, jot, outstanding, particle, point, super, **2**. point; *synonyms* (*n*) place, grade, peak, nib, edge, aim, article, degree, mark, spot, phase, apex, (*v*) head, direct, level.
- **ОЧОЛИТИ** head (голова); *synonyms* (n) chief, captain, front, point, boss, foam, froth, crown, chieftain, executive, chair, brain, (v) capital, direct, lead; *antonyms* (n) end, subordinate, (v) follow.
- очолювати 1. head (голова); synonyms (n) chief, captain, front, point, boss, foam, froth, crown, chieftain, executive, chair, brain, (v) capital, direct, lead; antonyms (n) end, subordinate, (v) follow, 2. captain; synonyms (n) head, leader, master, commander, commodore, guide, officer, pilot, skipper, ruler, (v) govern, manage.

- **ОЩАДЛИВИЙ** saving; *synonyms* (n) economy, conservation, preservation, rescue, cut, deliverance, delivery, (adj) economical, frugal, thrifty, save, chary, except, excepting, sparing; *antonym* (n) extravagance.
- OIII(A)[JIMBICTB economy; synonyms (n) frugality, parsimony, saving, thrift, conservation, efficiency, husbandry, prudence, stinginess, thriftiness, brevity, cut, (adj) system, arrangement, array; antonym (n) extravagance.

## П

- **павук** spider; *synonyms* (*n*) lota, mussuk, schooner, spinner, adapter, terrine, toby, urceus, araneidan, cob, attercop, cobnut, fish, goatsucker, pundit.
- павутина 1. web; *synonyms* (*n*) mesh, network, tissue, lattice, texture, blade, entanglement, maze, film, cobweb, complication, grain, labyrinth, (*v*) net, plexus, 2. tissue; *synonyms* (*n*) web, lump, heap, congeries, lace, pile, rouleau, (*v*) weave, (*adī*) mass, bulk.
- **IIABYTUHHЯ** web; *synonyms* (*n*) mesh, network, tissue, lattice, texture, blade, entanglement, maze, film, cobweb, complication, grain, labyrinth, (*v*) net, plexus.
- ΠΑΓΟΡΕ hill; synonyms (n) height, bank, gradient, mound, ascent, elevation, acclivity, embankment, grade, hillock, knoll, pile, rise, (ν) declivity, dip; antonym (n)
- падати 1. fall; *synonyms* (*v*) decline, dip, decrease, descend, dive, rain, diminish, dwindle, sink, alight, (*n*) drop, descent, downfall, plunge, pitch; *antonyms* (*v*) rise, increase, ascend, climb, triumph, win, (*n*) ascent, 2. pitch; *synonyms* (*n*) degree, slant, slope, measure, (*v*) fling, cast, chuck, lurch, tilt, toss, heave, hurl, throw, careen, launch, 3. drop; *synonyms* (*v*) fall, deposit, dribble, droop, abandon, discard, dismiss, drip, ebb, jump, shed, decay, die, (*n*) collapse, spot; *antonyms* (*v*) lift, (*n*) growth, 4. crash; *synonyms* (*n*) clash, collision, smash, clank, clatter, impact, slam, wreck, (*v*) bang, break, clang, crack, dash, ram, thunder.
- **ПАДІЖ** mortality; *synonyms* (n) fatality, death, flesh, humanity, mankind, deathrate, morbidity, (*adj*) caducity, fugacity, impermanence; *antonym* (n) immortality.
- падіння 1. fall (падати); synonyms (v) decline, dip, decrease, descend, dive, rain, diminish, dwindle, sink, alight, (n) drop, descent, downfall, plunge, pitch; antonyms (v) rise, increase, ascend, climb, triumph, win, (n) ascent, 2. incidence; synonyms (n) occurrence, commonness, incidency, pervasiveness, attack, bout, event, existence, popularity, regularity, spell, 3. dropping; synonyms (adj) falling, down, dipping, fatigued, plummeting, plunging, (n) sagging, dispatching; antonym (adj) rising, 4. drop; synonyms (v) fall, deposit, dribble, droop, abandon, cast, discard, dismiss, drip, ebb, jump, shed, decay, die, (n) collapse; antonyms (v) lift, (n) growth, 5. falling; synonyms (adj) dropping, descending, decreasing, declining, tumbling, 6. pitch; synonyms (n) degree, slant, slope, measure,

- angle, (v) fling, chuck, lurch, tilt, toss, heave, hurl, throw, careen, launch, 7. Upset; synonyms (v) overturn, agitate, disquiet, overthrow, bother, confuse, disturb, perturb, reverse, (adj) unsettled, hurt, (n) disorder, trouble, distress, disturbance; antonyms (v) calm, please, encourage, soothe, (adj) pleased, confident.
- падлюка heel; *synonyms* (*n*) blackguard, counter, dog, cad, scoundrel, shoe, sole, villain, bounder, (*v*) list, lean.
- ПАЖ page; *synonyms* (n) attendant, footboy, usher, note, pageboy, varlet, context, donzel, (v) paginate, summon.
- Πα3 slot; synonyms (n) groove, place, notch, gap, opening, position, aperture, cut, split, section, class, nick, partition, (ν) slit, rank.
- IIAM share; synonyms (n) piece, portion, deal, dole, lot, allotment, (v) participate, allot, apportion, distribute, part, partake, dispense, divide, partition; antonym (v) control
- **ΠΑΪΟΒΙΚ** shareholder; *synonyms* (*n*) participant, shareowner, stockholder, saver, depositor.
- IIAKA 1. pack; synonyms (n) bundle, mob, bevy, bunch, company, herd, batch, backpack, box, gang, (v) crowd, compress, heap, cram, fill; antonym (v) unpack, 2. package; synonyms (n) pack, packaging, packet, parcel, carton, container, collection, (v) wrap; antonym (v) unwrap.
- **HAKET 1.** packet; *synonyms* (n) package, bundle, bale, container, parcel, carton, pack, wad, box, envelope, collection, fortune, mailboat, 2. batch; *synonyms* (n) band, lot, body, battery, charge, group, heap, mass, set, suite, consignment, bunch, cluster, clutch, flock, 3. pack; *synonyms* (n) mob, bevy, company, herd, batch, backpack, gang, horde, knapsack, (v) crowd, compress, cram, fill, jam, load; *antonym* (v) unpack.
- HART pact; synonyms (n) accord, agreement, contract, bargain, bond, convention, deal, alliance, compact, covenant, treaty, understanding, engagement, arrangement, concord.
- Πακγβατυ 1. pack; synonyms (n) bundle, mob, bevy, bunch, company, herd, batch, backpack, box, gang, (v) crowd, compress, heap, cram, fill; antonym (v) unpack,
  2. package; synonyms (n) pack, packaging, packet, parcel, carton, container, collection, (v) wrap; antonym (v) unwrap.
- пакунок 1. parcel; synonyms (n) lot, bale, pack, bundle, division, package, packet, section, batch, plot, patch, allotment, (v) portion, distribute, apportion, 2. package; synonyms (n) packaging, parcel, carton, container, collection, (v) box, wrap; antonym (v) unwrap, 3. pack; synonyms (n) mob, bevy, bunch, company, herd, backpack, gang, horde, (v) crowd, compress, heap, cram, fill, jam, load; antonym (v) unpack.
- IIAJIAHTUH stole; synonyms (n) scarf, wrap, stolon, robe, alb, cassock, chasuble, cope, dalmatic, gown, mozetta, pallium, scapulary, surplice, tunicle.
- палата 1. chamber; synonyms (n) bedroom, hall, bedchamber, cavity, cell, council, compartment, committee, court, cubicle, room, 2. house; synonyms (n) family, home, dwelling, firm, abode, domicile, building, edifice, habitation, housing, establishment, structure, ancestry, (v) accommodate, lodge.

- IIA.JIATU 1. flame; synonyms (n) blaze, fire, ardour, burning, combustion, enthusiasm, fervor, glare, fervour, (v) burn, flash, flare, (adj) flush, glow, sweetheart, 2. burn; synonyms (v) bite, incinerate, scorch, sting, bake, beam, boil, cremate, ignite, sunburn, seethe, smolder, broil, cauterize, (adj) smoke; antonym (v) dawdle.
- палац 1. palace; *synonyms* (n) court, castle, mansion, hall, chateau, 2. castle; *synonyms* (n) rook, citadel, fortification, fortress, castling, fort, keep, palace, stronghold, tower, house, (v) donjon, (adi) fastness.
- **палений** burnt; *synonyms* (v) brent, (*adj*) burned, adust, baked, heated, sunburnt, adusted, arid, combust, dry, overcooked, overdone, consumed, dehydrated, desiccated; *antonym* (*adj*) underdone.
- палець 1. finger; *synonyms* (*n*) digit, dactyl, (*v*) feel, handle, touch, hand, thumb, grope, indicate, paw, point, accuse, **2**. thumb; *synonyms* (*n*) pollex, forefinger, (*v*) finger, flip, leaf, flick, hitch, hitchhike, riffle.
- паливо fuel; synonyms (n) firewood, combustible, firing, (v) fire, arouse, encourage, excite, kindle, provoke, stimulate
- палити 1. burn; synonyms (v) bite, glow, blaze, incinerate, scorch, sting, bake, beam, boil, cremate, flare, ignite, sunburn, (n) fire, (adj) flush; antonym (v) dawdle,
  2. smoke; synonyms (n) fumes, fog, mist, perfume, smoking, smoulder, (v) fume, reek, fumigate, puff, exhale, cure, burn, smolder, (adj) smudge.
- **палиця 1.** staff; *synonyms* (n) cane, club, post, employees, faculty, personnel, rod, mace, baton, brace, stave, court, (v) crutch, prop, stick, **2.** club; *synonyms* (n) association, bat, circle, society, company, cudgel, fraternity, gang, group, guild, nightclub, order, (v) beat, bludgeon, hit, **3.** stick; *synonyms* (n) bar, (v) adhere, stab, attach, cling, fix, paste, staff, cohere, affix, bind, cleave, fasten, hold, impale.
- **IIAJIIHHЯ** smoking; *synonyms* (*v*) candent, ebullient, glowing, (*n*) smoke, fume, bullet, cannabis, dope, drag, fastball, gage, ganja, grass, (*adj*) burning, furious.
- IIAJIKA stick; synonyms (n) bar, club, (v) adhere, stab, attach, cling, fix, paste, staff, cohere, affix, bind, cleave, fasten, hold.
- ПАЛКИЙ passionate; synonyms (adj) ardent, hot, angry, animated, burning, excited, fervent, fierce, earnest, amorous, eager, enthusiastic, excitable, (adv) fiery, (v) impetuous; antonyms (adj) apathetic, indifferent, mild, passionless.
- IIAJIKO hot; synonyms (adj) warm, ardent, boiling, burning, feverish, fiery, flaming, fresh, blistering, eager, enthusiastic, fast, peppery, pungent, spicy; antonyms (adj) mild, cool, cold, freezing, airy, bland, chilly.
- палуба deck; synonyms (v) adorn, beautify, clothe, embellish, floor, array, bedeck, ornament, attire, bedight, decorate, dress, garnish, grace, trim.
- **пальма** palm; *synonyms* (*n*) decoration, medal, prize, thenar, victory, medallion, (*v*) hand, filch, bag, cabbage, crib, handle, nim, pilfer, rob.
- **пальне** fuel; *synonyms* (*n*) firewood, combustible, firing, (*v*) fire, arouse, encourage, excite, kindle, provoke, stimulate.

- **Пальто** coat; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, coating, crust, film, fur, jacket, layer, bark, case, casing, (*v*) cloak, sheath, blanket, plaster, glaze.
- пам'ятати 1. remember; synonyms (v) commemorate, recognize, recall, recollect, consider, record, remind, retain, think, review, ponder, mark, imagine, refresh, cite; antonym (v) forget, 2. mind (розум); synonyms (n) intellect, brain, head, inclination, intelligence, psyche, regard, (v) care, look, attend, beware, keep, listen, notice, (adi) heed, 3. retain; synonyms (v) preserve, reserve, have, continue, hold, maintain, employ, engage, hire, own, detain, possess, defend, occupy, remember.
- **пам'ятка** monument; *synonyms* (*n*) memorial, headstone, column, record, tombstone, shrine, slab, tablet, landmark, statue, (*adj*) obelisk, pillar.
- **пам'ятний** 1. memorial; *synonyms* (*n*) commemoration, remembrance, memento, cenotaph, headstone, monument, record, epitaph, memory, token, tombstone, (*adj*) commemorative, 2. memorable; *synonyms* (*adj*) extraordinary, notable, signal, unforgettable, eventful, momentous, monumental, noteworthy, striking; *antonym* (*adj*) forgettable.
- παм'ятник 1. monument; synonyms (n) memorial, headstone, column, record, tombstone, shrine, slab, tablet, landmark, statue, (adj) obelisk, pillar, 2. memorial; synonyms (n) commemoration, remembrance, memento, cenotaph, monument, epitaph, memory, token, (adj) commemorative.
- **ΠαΜ'ЯΤЬ** memory; *synonyms* (n) memento, recall, recollection, remembrance, reminiscence, commemoration, memorial, remembering, retention, retrospect, storage, store, recognition, retrospection, (ν) mind
- IIAH 1. sir; synonyms (n) esquire, gentleman, master, man, don, signior, buck, dominus, effendi, magister, signore, 2. pan; synonyms (n) dish, knock, rap, panning, plate, platter, porringer, pot, saucer, calabash, hardpan, (v) slam, criticize, review, 3. lord; synonyms (n) chief, noble, sir, seignior, almighty, creator, maker, mistress, nobleman, overlord, ruler, captain, impropriator, 4. master; synonyms (n) instructor, head, boss, leader, authority, employer, (v) conquer, control, command, defeat, dominate, (adj) original, ace, expert, proficient.
- панель 1. panel; *synonyms* (n) board, jury, defendant, committee, plank, set, sheet, wall, accused, window, (v) empanel, impanel, 2. socket; *synonyms* (n) cavity, alveolus, sleeve, hollow, pocket, slot, recess, sheath, compass, employment, fitment, fob, overshot, pouch, province.
- **Hahi 1.** dame; *synonyms* (*n*) female, lady, gentlewoman, girl, ma'am, matron, skirt, wench, woman, bird, chick, **2**. mistress; *synonyms* (*n*) dame, concubine, inamorata, madame, lover, missis, master, owner, schoolmarm, schoolmistress, teacher, impropriator, **3**. madame, **4**. madam; *synonyms* (*n*) wife, signora, doll, noblewoman, peeress, **5**. lady; *synonyms* (*n*) noble, (*v*) squaw; *antonym* (*n*) man.
- **ПАНІВНИЙ** dominant; *synonyms* (*adj*) commanding, influential, leading, overriding, paramount, powerful, primary, principal, rampant, main, major, authoritative,

- chief, domineering, (v) prevalent; *antonyms* (*adj*) minor, submissive, subordinate.
- паніка panic; *synonyms* (*n*) alarm, dismay, horror, scare, dread, fright, anxiety, fear, flap, hysteria, funk, (*v*) shock, (*adj*) consternation, terror, awe; *antonym* (*n*) composure.
- панічний panic; *synonyms* (*n*) alarm, dismay, horror, scare, dread, fright, anxiety, fear, flap, hysteria, funk, (*v*) shock, (*adj*) consternation, terror, awe; *antonym* (*n*) composure.
- **IIAHCIOHAT** pension; *synonyms* (*n*) allowance, annuity, payment, stipend, endowment, inn, subsistence, hostel, tribute, (*v*) dismiss.
- IIAHYBAHHЯ 1. domination; synonyms (n) control, authority, command, ascendancy, ascendency, dominance, dominion, mastery, power, rule, superiority, supremacy, jurisdiction, government, influence, 2. dominance; synonyms (n) domination, advantage, ascendance, authorization, preponderance, primacy, ascendence; antonym (n) inferiority, 3. reign; synonyms (n) administration, kingdom, lead, regime, sway, raj, empire, (v) govern, dominate, predominate, prevail, manage, administer, master, direct.
- **ΠαΗΥΒΑΤΗ 1.** reign; *synonyms* (*n*) dominance, control, dominion, government, administration, kingdom, lead, power, (*ν*) rule, command, govern, dominate, predominate, prevail, manage, **2.** dominate; *synonyms* (*ν*) reign, direct, overlook, possess, crush, domineer, hold, influence, master, overpower, overrule, quell, run, subdue, (*adi*) preponderate.
- ΠΑΗΙΨΡ 1. crust; synonyms (n) bark, cheekiness, covering, gall, impertinence, peel, shell, skin, coating, encrustation, impudence, incrustation, insolence, rind, (ν) coat, 2. armour; synonym (ν) armor.
- **паперовий** paper (папір); *synonyms* (*n*) document, article, newspaper, discourse, newsprint, certificate, essay, journal, magazine, periodical, report, composition, form, ticket, publisher.
- **ΠΑΠΕΡΤЬ** porch; *synonyms* (n) lobby, hall, veranda, vestibule, balcony, door, entrance, portico, inlet, doorway, patio, portal, chops, conservatory, lips.
- **папір** paper; *synonyms* (n) document, article, newspaper, discourse, newsprint, certificate, essay, journal, magazine, periodical, report, composition, form, ticket, publisher.
- **папський** papal; *synonyms* (*adj*) apostolic, pontifical, apostolical, clerical, pontific, pontificial.
- napa 1. pair; synonyms (n) match, brace, duet, duo, dyad, coupling, couplet, duad, (v) couple, join, mate, copulate, link, equate, (adj) doublet, 2. steam; synonyms (n) mist, fog, haze, vapor, cloud, energy, (v) reek, evaporate, exhale, smoke, fume, cook, pull, boil, (adj) gas, 3. couple; synonyms (n) yoke, twosome, deuce, (v) pair, connect, associate, combine, attach, tie, fasten, wed, bridge, annex, add, (adj) hook; antonym (v) uncouple, 4. match; synonyms (n) equal, competition, duplicate, peer, bout, (v) agree, meet, parallel, accord, correspond, harmonise, harmonize, balance, fellow, fit; antonyms (v) clash, contradict.
- параграф 1. paragraph; *synonyms* (*n*) article, item, section, chapter, head, division, part, piece, sentence, count, (*v*) clause, passage, **2**. article (стаття);

- *synonyms* (n) object, thing, commodity, composition, discourse, entity, essay, feature, paper, report, review, story, ware, condition, dissertation.
- **παρα**π parade; *synonyms* (n) display, ostentation, show, pageant, ceremony, pomp, flourish, (ν) flaunt, exhibit, demonstrate, array, strut, swagger, troop, walk.
- **парадигма** paradigm; *synonyms* (*n*) example, exemplar, epitome, model, archetype, pattern, prototype, ideal, paragon, type, criterion, ensample, image, module.
- **парадокс** paradox; *synonyms* (n) incongruity, ambiguity, inconsistency, puzzle, catch-22, difficulty, fallacy, irony, opposite, paradoxy, phenomenon, anomaly, catch, contrariness, error.
- **IIAPAJIEJIb** parallel; *synonyms* (*adj*) equivalent, even, comparable, level, like, alike, matching, (*n*) equal, analogy, likeness, analog, (*v*) compare, match, duplicate, agree; *antonyms* (*adj*) conflicting, dissimilar, (*n*) perpendicular, skew.
- паралельний parallel; synonyms (adj) equivalent, even, comparable, level, like, alike, matching, (n) equal, analogy, likeness, analog, (v) compare, match, duplicate, agree; antonyms (adj) conflicting, dissimilar, (n) perpendicular, skew.
- **IIAPAMETP** parameter; *synonyms* (n) argument, guideline, limit, directive, modulus, quality, rule, bound, bylaw, consideration, constraint, decree, instruction, issue law.
- **IIAPACOJIЬKA** umbrella; *synonyms* (n) parasol, sunshade, shelter, canopy, cover, protection, screen, shield, tent, awning, covert, marquee, tilt, (adj) comprehensive.
- **παραφίя** parish; *synonyms* (n) district, community, congregation, region, province, township, borough, church, area, constituency, neighborhood, town, subdivision, (adi) local.
- **πapi** bet; *synonyms* (ν) gamble, play, lay, risk, venture, (n) wager, stake, stakes.
- **παρκ** park; *synonyms* (n) garden, common, green, parkland, arena, field, lawn, ballpark, commons, (ν) deposit, locate, place, put, set, position.
- **парламент 1.** parliament; *synonyms* (*n*) congress, council, diet, assembly, legislature, house, convention, convocation, senate, fantan, **2.** diet; *synonyms* (*n*) nurture, food, dieting, fare, nourishment, sustenance, synod, cockpit, fast; *antonyms* (*v*) binge, (*adj*) fattening.
- парламентський parliamentary; synonyms (adj) congressional, legislative, parliamental.
- **ΠΑΡΟΒΟ3** engine; synonyms (n) locomotive, machine, contrivance, implement, instrument, mechanism, organ, tool, utensil.
- **Παροστοκ** offspring; *synonyms* (n) issue, progeny, brood, children, family, child, descendant, descendants, lineage, posterity, race, seed, (ν) breed, fruit, generation.
- парта desk; *synonyms* (n) bench, box, coffer, table, caddy, caisson, case, casket, chest.
- **партійний** party; *synonyms* (n) gang, band, company, assembly, association, crew, gathering, group, affair, bevy, celebration, crowd, do, faction, meeting.
- **παρτίя** 1. party; *synonyms* (n) gang, band, company, assembly, association, crew, gathering, group, affair, bevy, celebration, crowd, do, faction, meeting, 2.

- game; *synonyms* (n) amusement, fun, entertainment, competition, contest, diversion, match, play, prey, quarry, sport, (*adj*) fearless, (v) bet, gamble, wager.
- **Παρττιep** partner; *synonyms* (*n*) consort, copartner, accomplice, associate, companion, fellow, ally, collaborator, colleague, mate, pal, friend, confederate, wife, (*adi*) comrade.
- парубок 1. boy (хлопець); *synonyms* (n) lad, fellow, kid, male, man, minor, servant, son, youngster, youth, boots, 2. fellow; *synonyms* (adj) comrade, (n) companion, associate, boy, equal, brother, chap, colleague, compeer, peer, buddy, dude, dog, counterpart, (v) concomitant.
- Παργς sail; synonyms (n) float, voyage, canvas, sheet, plane, ship, (v) cruise, navigate, run, glide, cross, drift, sweep, travel, fly.
- ПАРУСИНА 1. duck (качка); synonyms (n) darling, canvas, (v) dip, douse, plunge, dodge, circumvent, dive, evade, souse, bob, avoid, crouch, dunk, elude, 2. canvas; synonyms (n) picture, duck, sail, sheet, (v) canvass, painting, tableau.
- **Παταж** passage; *synonyms* (n) aisle, course, channel, corridor, gangway, hall, journey, entry, way, entrance, lobby, duct, opening, avenue, citation.
- **пасажир** passenger; *synonyms* (*n*) traveler, wayfarer, itinerant, rider, voyager, passer, arrival, passager, client, drop, excursionist, load, patron, wanderer.
- **ПАСАЖИРК**A passenger (пасажир); *synonyms* (*n*) traveler, wayfarer, itinerant, rider, voyager, passer, arrival, passager, client, drop, excursionist, load, patron, wanderer.
- **пасивний 1**. passive; *synonyms* (*adj*) inactive, apathetic, inert, submissive, indifferent, lifeless, nonviolent, resigned, dormant, slow, unresisting, impassive, indolent, meek, patient; *antonyms* (*adj*) active, assertive, spirited, working, **2**. floppy; *synonyms* (*adj*) flabby, flaccid, drooping, loose, slack, soft, baggy, droopy, (*n*) limp, diskette; *antonyms* (*adj*) stiff, taut.
- **паскудний** nasty; *synonyms* (*adj*) dirty, loathsome, disgusting, filthy, foul, awful, mean, abominable, coarse, disagreeable, distasteful, evil, hurtful, obnoxious, raw; *antonyms* (*adj*) agreeable, kind, pleasant, nice, charitable, lovely.
- IIACMO strand; synonyms (n) coast, shore, rope, chain, filament, line, string, bank, thread, wisp, yarn, (v) beach, maroon, desert, abandon.
- **ПАСОВИЩЕ** outlet; *synonyms* (*n*) shop, market, egress, exit, opening, store, drain, emporium, hole, issue, aperture, emission, escape, gap, release.
- IIACOK 1. zone; synonyms (n) area, district, region, section, belt, locality, quarter, realm, layer, territory, province, neighborhood, orbit, circuit, division, 2. belt; synonyms (n) ribbon, strap, knock, strip, zone, bang, (v) band, hit, wallop, whack, beat, smash, whip, thrash, flog.
- **паспорт** passport; *synonyms* (n) pass, permit, protection, identification, safeguard, warrant.
- IIACTBA congregation; synonyms (n) concourse, assemblage, assembly, collection, gathering, meeting, congregating, convocation, crowd, flock, fold, company, audience, confluence, throng.

- **Παсτи** shepherd; *synonyms* (*n*) pastor, clergyman, minister, sheepherder, sheepman, priest, presbyter, churchman, divine, ecclesiastic, (*ν*) conduct, guide, lead, guard, cowherd.
- **Παсτир** shepherd; *synonyms* (n) pastor, clergyman, minister, sheepherder, sheepman, priest, presbyter, churchman, divine, ecclesiastic, (ν) conduct, guide, lead, guard, cowherd.
- ΠΑCΤΗCЯ grass; synonyms (n) cannabis, forage, marijuana, pasture, dope, feed, ganja, herb, herbage, informer, (v) betray, denounce, (adj) pot, green, hemp.
- **ΠαCTKA 1.** trap; *synonyms* (n) snare, net, ambush, gin, mesh, noose, entanglement, ambuscade, bait, (ν) catch, entrap, ensnare, trick, entangle, capture, **2**. net; *synonyms* (adj) final, last, (n) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, lattice, meshwork, (ν) clear, gain, make, trap, earn, knit; *antonym* (ν) gross.
- **HacTyx 1**. herd; *synonyms* (n) flock, swarm, drove, gang, crew, covey, mob, multitude, band, company, (v) crowd, cluster, drive, (adj) bevy, shoal, **2**. shepherd; *synonyms* (n) pastor, clergyman, minister, sheepherder, sheepman, priest, presbyter, churchman, divine, ecclesiastic, (v) conduct, guide, lead, guard, cowherd.
- IIACYBATU 1. fit; synonyms (v) agree, accommodate, meet, suit, adapt, correspond, square, accord, dress, (adj) decorous, apt, applicable, appropriate, (n) adjust, convulsion; antonyms (adj) unfit, inappropriate, unwell,
  2. suit; synonyms (n) lawsuit, plea, action, case, petition, cause, courtship, (v) fit, answer, become, match, please, satisfy, befit, harmonize.
- **ΠατΕΗΤ 1.** patent; *synonyms* (*adj*) obvious, overt, apparent, evident, manifest, clear, conspicuous, open, palpable, plain, explicit, marked, noticeable, transparent, unmistakable; *antonym* (*adj*) unclear, **2.** warrant; *synonyms* (*n*) guarantee, authority, vouch, authorization, security, certificate, commission, (*ν*) permit, license, assure, justify, sanction, ensure, authorize, empower, **3**. charter; *synonyms* (*n*) hire, code, law, constitution, contract, franchise, grant, immunity, patent, (*ν*) let, rent, engage, lease, take, get.
- ПАТЕНТОВАНИЙ patent (патент); synonyms (adj) obvious, overt, apparent, evident, manifest, clear, conspicuous, open, palpable, plain, explicit, marked, noticeable, transparent, unmistakable; antonym (adj) unclear.
- **ПАТЕТИЧНИЙ** pathetic; *synonyms* (*adj*) deplorable, miserable, touching, affecting, pitiful, sad, wretched, forlorn, lamentable, tragic, distressing, piteous, poor, woeful, grievous; *antonym* (*adj*) brave.
- патик stick; synonyms (n) bar, club, (v) adhere, stab, attach, cling, fix, paste, staff, cohere, affix, bind, cleave, fasten. hold.
- **IIATPOH** patron; *synonyms* (n) backer, champion, advocate, friend, benefactor, client, customer, defender, helper, sponsor, frequenter, supporter, abettor, buyer, fautor.
- **патрони** ammunition; *synonyms* (n) ammo, munition, shot, bullet, armament, missile, bullets, explosive, fuel, narcotic, ball, bombs, buckshot, cannonball, chemical.

- патруль patrol; *synonyms* (n) beat, protection, patrolman, scout, sentinel, spy, detachment, force, (v) watch, guard, prowl.
- **ΠΑΤΡΥ ΠΟΒΑΗΗ Я** patrol; *synonyms* (n) beat, protection, patrolman, scout, sentinel, spy, detachment, force, (v) watch, guard, prowl.
- **патрулювати** patrol; *synonyms* (n) beat, protection, patrolman, scout, sentinel, spy, detachment, force, (v) watch, guard, prowl.
- **Hay3a 1.** pause; *synonyms* (n) break, intermission, interruption, rest, gap, interval, respite, stop, breather, (v) halt, adjournment, delay, hesitate, desist, (adj) discontinue; *antonyms* (n) decisiveness, (v) continue, **2**. break; *synonyms* (v) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, tear, undo, beat, (n) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, collapse, suspension; *antonyms* (v) repair, obey, honor, mend, (n) continuation, **3**. interval; *synonyms* (n) distance, interlude, hiatus, interim, period, span, length, cessation, space, time, interstice, blank, lull, recess, (adv) meantime.
- **пах** pope; *synonyms* (n) pontiff, cardinal, fish, (adj) church, gospel, scripture.
- **ΠαχΗΥΤ** smell; *synonyms* (n) odor, fragrance, savor, aroma, bouquet, odour, savour, stench, flavor, smack, (ν) reek, nose, perfume, scent, stink.
- **IIAXOIЦI 1.** breathing; *synonyms* (*n*) breath, (*adj*) animate, live, living, alive, **2.** odour; *synonyms* (*n*) fragrance, flavour, aroma, smell, odor, scent, flavor, feel, feeling, look, olfaction, smelling, spirit, tone.
- **ΠαμίєΗΤ** 1. patient; *synonyms* (*adj*) invalid, forbearing, passive, calm, enduring, resigned, tolerant, uncomplaining, stoical, lenient, meek, persistent, considerate, indefatigable; *antonym* (*adj*) impatient, 2. Case; *synonyms* (*n*) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, (*adj*) patient.
- **пацюк** rat (шур); *synonyms* (*n*) grass, informer, apostate, betrayer, scab, renegade, (*v*) blackleg, denounce, betray, peach, sing, apostatize, squeal, defect, inform.
- IIA4KA 1. batch; synonyms (n) band, lot, body, battery, charge, group, heap, mass, set, suite, consignment, bunch, bundle, cluster, clutch, 2. parcel; synonyms (n) bale, pack, division, package, packet, section, batch, plot, patch, allotment, share, (v) portion, distribute, apportion, divide.
- певний 1. certain; synonyms (adj) actual, definite, sure, absolute, assured, dependable, indisputable, reliable, categorical, decisive, fixed, inevitable, infallible, particular, (v) bound; antonyms (adj) uncertain, doubtful, unsure, questionable, 2. precise; synonyms (adj) exact, accurate, correct, minute, careful, certain, delicate, neat, ceremonious, clear, distinct, faithful, fastidious, formal, (v) close; antonyms (adj) imprecise, inaccurate, vague, rough, 3. decided; synonyms (v) positive, emphatic, marked, determinate, settled, (adj) determined, resolute, unmistakable, conclusive, peremptory, unequivocal, final, finished, firm, stark; antonym (adj) undecided, 4. definite: synonyms (adi) concrete, plain, precise, specific, sharp, decided, defined, explicit, pronounced, confident, special, undeniable, guaranteed, confirmed, definitive: antonyms (adi) unclear, undefined.

- indeterminate, evasive, indefinite, indescribable, qualified, **5**. sure; *synonyms* (*adj*) secure, safe, fast, indubitable, stable, true, unerring, unfailing, unwavering, hard, steadfast, (*adv*) certainly, (*v*) steady, convinced, (*int*) yes; *antonym* (*adj*) hesitant.
- **певно 1**. likely; *synonyms* (*adj*) credible, believable, probable, expected, plausible, potential, conceivable, apt, feasible, hopeful, possible, prospective, verisimilar, (*adv*) possibly, belike; *antonyms* (*adj*) improbable, (*adv*) unlikely, **2**. apparently; *synonyms* (*adv*) seemingly, clearly, evidently, manifestly, obviously, ostensibly, patently, allegedly, noticeably, plain, plainly, presumably, probably, supposedly, visibly.
- ПЕДАГОГІЧНИЙ educational; synonyms (adj) instructional, informative, cultural, enlightening, elevating, inspiring, uplifting, artistic, civilizing, college, enriching, heartening, helpful, inspirational, intellectual; antonym (adj) depressing.
- ПЕДАНТИЧНИЙ precise; synonyms (adj) exact, accurate, correct, definite, minute, careful, certain, delicate, neat, particular, ceremonious, clear, distinct, faithful, (v) close; antonyms (adj) imprecise, inaccurate, vague, rough.
- пейзаж 1. view; synonyms (n) look, sight, judgment, opinion, scene, idea, outlook, prospect, thought, aspect, (v) regard, observe, see, consider, eye, 2. scenery; synonyms (n) landscape, panorama, nature, perspective, picture, set, vista, lookout, view, 3. landscape; synonyms (n) scenery, ground.
- IIEKAP baker; synonyms (n) cook, chef, doughboy.
  пекло hell; synonyms (n) blaze, inferno, netherworld, perdition, underworld, anguish, ordeal, trial, pit, limbo, aides, bedlam, blazing, brilliance, conflagration;
  antonym (n) heaven.
- **ΠΕΚΤΗ** COOK; *synonyms* (n) chef, (v) boil, bake, brew, make, prepare, concoct, falsify, grill, poach, roast, simmer, stew, coddle, heat.
- **IIEJIEPHHA** cape; *synonyms* (n) cloak, headland, ness, shawl, coat, mantle, point, promontory.
- **IIEHAJIbTI** penalty; *synonyms* (*n*) mulct, fine, forfeit, forfeiture, amercement, judgment, handicap, penalization, penance, sentence, pain, conviction, punishment, sanction, (*v*) condemnation.
- **ПЕНЗЕЛЬ 1.** brush; *synonyms* (*n*) brushwood, clash, collision, conflict, copse, encounter, (*v*) broom, graze, sweep, touch, clean, kiss, rub, scour, (*adj*) rake, **2**. pencil (олівець); *synonyms* (*n*) pen, beam, clump, cluster, gleam, group, light, (*v*) brush, draw, design, paint.
- **пеніс** penis; *synonyms* (n) member, phallus, appendage, extremity.
- **пенні** penny; *synonyms* (n) cent, change, centime, groat, money, doit, mite, coinage, currency, denomination, farthing, rap, sou, denarius, shilling.
- **IIEHC** penny; *synonyms* (n) cent, change, centime, groat, money, doit, mite, coinage, currency, denomination, farthing, rap, sou, denarius, shilling.
- **пенсіонер** pensioner; *synonyms* (*n*) pensionary, beneficiary, hireling, senior, ward.

- **πεнείя** pension; *synonyms* (n) allowance, annuity, payment, stipend, endowment, inn, subsistence, hostel, tribute, (v) dismiss.
- пеня fine; synonyms (adj) delicate, agreeable, dainty, brave, capital, elegant, excellent, nice, thin, delightful, acute, admirable, alright, (n) penalty, (v) punish; antonyms (adj) poor, thick, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, wide.
- первинний 1. primary; synonyms (adj) chief, basic, elementary, essential, first, foremost, major, original, fundamental, initial, preliminary, primal, (n) paramount, main, cardinal; antonym (adj) secondary, 2. prime; synonyms (adj) head, early, primary, excellent, exquisite, overriding, premier, grand, capital, central, (n) best, flower, bloom, blossom, (v) ground; antonym (adj) minor, 3. Original; synonyms (adj) authentic, native, new, primitive, indigenous, aboriginal, creative, fresh, imaginative, inventive, primeval, primordial, (n) archetype, model, prototype; antonyms (adj) commonplace, banal, copied, corny, derivative, hackneyed, well-worn, conventional, resulting, unimaginative, (n) copy, counterfeit, fake, imitation, replica.
- первісний 1. primitive; synonyms (adj) primeval, primary, antediluvian, archaic, crude, early, first, original, aboriginal, ancient, antiquated, basic, primal, primordial, radical; antonym (adj) modern, 2. original; synonyms (adj) authentic, native, new, primitive, indigenous, creative, fresh, imaginative, inventive, initial, fundamental, eccentric, (n) archetype, model, prototype; antonyms (adj) commonplace, banal, copied, corny, derivative, hackneyed, well-worn, conventional, resulting, unimaginative, (n) copy, counterfeit, fake, imitation, replica, 3. initial; synonyms (adj) beginning, elementary, incipient, foremost, preliminary, rudimentary, commencing, introductory, leading, opening, (n) alpha, (v) sign, 4. prime; synonyms (adj) main, chief, head, essential, paramount, excellent, exquisite, overriding, premier, grand, (n) best, cardinal, flower, bloom, (v) ground; antonym (adj) minor, 5. primary; synonyms (adj) major, basal, capital, central, dominant, key, principal, highest, base, vital, direct, elemental, firsthand, staple, (n) prime; antonym (adj) secondary.
- **ΠΕΡΓΑΜΕΗΤ** basil; *synonyms* (*n*) basan, sheepskin, parsley, rosemary, sage, thyme.
- перебільшувати romance; *synonyms* (n) fiction, novel, story, intrigue, affair, fable, romanticism, tale, vagary, (v) court, flirt, exaggerate, woo, coquet, coquette.
- **ΠΕΡΕБОРОТИ** overcome; *synonyms* (*v*) conquer, beat, crush, subdue, vanquish, defeat, master, overpower, hurdle, overwhelm, prevail, subjugate, surmount, demolish, (*adj*) beaten; *antonyms* (*v*) fail, (*adj*) victorious, unimpressed.
- **ΠΕΡΕБΟΡΗΟΒΑΤΗ** overcome; *synonyms* (*v*) conquer, beat, crush, subdue, vanquish, defeat, master, overpower, hurdle, overwhelm, prevail, subjugate, surmount, demolish, (*adj*) beaten; *antonyms* (*v*) fail, (*adj*) victorious, unimpressed.
- **перебування** stay; *synonyms* (*v*) remain, reside, rest, prop, stop, abide, continue, endure, pause, arrest, bide,

- dwell, support, (n) delay, halt; *antonyms* (v) leave, change, abscond, depart.
- **ITEPEBYBATH 1.** be; *synonyms* (v) exist, live, act, consist, constitute, represent, cost, follow, form, lie, remain, rest, stay, subsist, (n) stand, **2.** lie; *synonyms* (v) repose, falsify, belong, couch, dwell, (n) fabrication, falsehood, falsity, fib, fiction, untruth, bluff, counterfeit, deceit, deception; *antonym* (n) truth.
- IIEPESY, AOBA 1. alteration; synonyms (n) adaptation, adjustment, change, revision, shift, changeover, amendment, conversion, deviation, metamorphosis, modification, transformation, turn, variation, movement, 2. reconstruction; synonyms (n) restoration, reconstitution, repair, reestablishment, rehabilitation, reinstatement, renewal, reformation, fossil, innovation, overhaul, redecoration, remembrance, replacement, upgrading.
- перевага 1. advantage; synonyms (n) behalf, privilege, profit, account, expediency, good, lead, preponderance, virtue, perk, boot, avail, convenience, gain, (v) benefit; antonyms (n) drawback, detriment, difficulty, (v) disadvantage, 2. preference; synonyms (n) choice, inclination, liking, option, predilection, election, alternative, fondness, partiality, penchant, precedence, preferment, pleasure, fancy, advantage, 3. superiority; synonyms (n) predominance, excellence, mastery, odds, priority, preference, distinction, domination, eminence, supremacy, cleverness, fineness, majority, perfection, ascendancy; antonyms (n) inferiority, humility, 4. domination: synonyms (n) control, authority. command, ascendency, dominance, dominion, power, rule, superiority, jurisdiction, government, influence, subjugation, tyranny, oppression, 5. asset; synonyms (n) strength, forte, purchase, plus, possession, investment; *antonyms* (n) liability, vice, **6**. excellence; synonyms (n) goodness, greatness, quality, value, (adj) merit, worth, desert, 7. odds; synonyms (n) chance, likelihood, possibility, probability, likeliness, chances, prospect, handicap, edge, (v) difference, dissension, misunderstanding, variance, 8. privilege; synonyms (n) charter, immunity, liberty, prerogative, freedom, exemption, franchise, grant, concession, claim, due, permit, (v) license, favor, favour.
- **переважання** prevalence; *synonyms* (*n*) preponderance, domination, advantage, ascendency, ascendancy, frequency, predominance, superiority, excellence, sway, popularity, vogue, commonness, pressure.
- переважати 1. beat; synonyms (v) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (n) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; antonym (v) lose, 2. exceed; synonyms (v) beat, pass, surpass, outdo, surmount, transcend, cap, outshine, outweigh, overrun, top, excel, outgo, outmatch, (adj) better, 3. dominate; synonyms (v) command, control, prevail, reign, rule, direct, manage, overlook, possess, predominate, crush, domineer, govern, hold, (adj) preponderate.
- **ПЕРЕВАЖАЮЧИЙ 1.** superior; *synonyms* (*adj*) senior, dominant, better, exceptional, predominant, elder, great, arrogant, chief, eminent, excellent, high, higher, lofty, proud; *antonyms* (*adj*) humble, worse, poor, (*n*) inferior, subordinate, subscript, **2**.

- overwhelming; *synonyms* (*adj*) overpowering, devastating, irresistible, insurmountable, crushing, monumental, amazing, astounding, tremendous, awesome, breathtaking, consuming, formidable, impossible, intense; *antonym* (*adj*) imperceptible, **3**. prevailing; *synonyms* (*adj*) prevalent, rife, common, current, overriding, general, popular, epidemic, influential, powerful, usual, customary, ordinary, regular, preponderant; *antonym* (*adi*) minor.
- **ПЕРЕВАЖНИЙ** prevalent; *synonyms* (*adj*) common, general, predominant, popular, rife, extensive, ascendant, dominant, epidemic, pervasive, ruling, widespread, chief, (*n*) current, (*v*) prevailing; *antonym* (*adj*) minor.
- переважно 1. mainly; synonyms (adv) chiefly, primarily, principally, largely, mostly, particularly, especially, generally, (adj) notably, curiously, 2. rather; synonyms (adv) quite, enough, fairly, pretty, moderately, considerably, instead, kinda, preferably, relatively, somewhat, comparatively, reasonably, sooner; antonym (adv) extremely, 3. principally; synonyms (adv) mainly, predominantly, essentially, preeminently.
- **ΠΕΡΕΒΕДΕΗΗЯ** transfer; *synonyms* (n) conveyance, assignment, (v) convey, carry, change, remove, shift, exchange, send, transmit, transport, commit, consign, deliver, give; *antonyms* (v) hold, keep.
- перевезення 1. transportation; synonyms (n) deportation, banishment, exile, carriage, freight, shipping, transfer, transit, traffic, transference, ecstasy, rapture, (v) transport, conveyance, transmission, 2. carriage; synonyms (n) attitude, behavior, air, coach, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, walk, carrying, (v) bearing, 3. transit; synonyms (n) journey, passage, travel, movement, transportation, theodolite, 4. transport; synonyms (v) transmit, bear, carry, delight, enrapture, banish, convey, enchant, ferry, ravish, send, take, bring, entrance, fetch; antonyms (v) disenchant, remain, 5. traffic; synonyms (n) dealings, commerce, business, dealing, interchange, intercourse, industry, (v) exchange, trade, deal, barter, bargain, truck, custom, employment.
- **IIEPEBE3TM** transport; *synonyms* (n) rapture, (v) transfer, transmit, bear, carry, delight, enrapture, exile, banish, convey, enchant, ferry, ravish, send, take; *antonyms* (v) disenchant, remain.
- перевертати reverse; synonyms (adj) opposite, converse, inverse, (v) annul, repeal, rescind, countermand, overturn, revoke, rear, nullify, cancel, invert, overrule, (n) contrary; antonym (n) front.
- **перевершити** сар; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (*v*) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.
- **ΠΕΡΕΒИЩЕННЯ** excess; *synonyms* (*adj*) extra, additional, (*n*) surplus, dissipation, extravagance, plethora, abundance, exaggeration, glut, overabundance, overindulgence, overplus, remainder, rest, superfluity; *antonyms* (*n*) lack, shortage, restraint, moderation, dearth, shortfall.
- **перевищувати** exceed; *synonyms* (*v*) beat, pass, surpass, outdo, surmount, transcend, cap, outshine,

- outweigh, overrun, top, excel, outgo, outmatch, (adj) better.
- **перевізник** сагтіет; *synonyms* (*n*) bearer, messenger, courier, mailman, porter, postman, vehicle, transport, envoy, bag, channel, container, emissary, newsboy, solvent
- ПЕРЕВІРЕНИЙ 1. approved; synonyms (adj) accepted, certified, sanctioned, allowed, authorized, accredited, agreed, conventional, regular, official, orthodox; antonyms (adj) informal, unofficial, 2. checked; synonyms (adj) checkered, chequered, plaid, backward, curbed, intermittent, limited, numbered, pentup, safe, silent, tartan, temperate.
- **περεΒίρκα 1**. audit; *synonyms* (*n*) survey, examination, review, scrutiny, (*v*) check, balance, inspect, examine, prove, scrutinize, **2**. check; *synonyms* (*v*) bridle, stop, block, limit, agree, halt, restrain, bar, dampen, delay, (*n*) control, arrest, curb, bill, cheque, **3**. review; *synonyms* (*n*) critique, inspection, retrospect, commentary, comment, parade, magazine, criticism, investigation, notice, (*v*) criticize, judge, reexamine, revise, recapitulate.
- перевіряти 1. check; synonyms (v) bridle, stop, block, limit, agree, halt, restrain, bar, dampen, delay, (n) control, arrest, curb, bill, cheque, 2. audit; synonyms (n) survey, examination, review, scrutiny, (v) check, balance, inspect, examine, prove, scrutinize, 3. review; synonyms (n) critique, inspection, retrospect, commentary, comment, parade, magazine, criticism, investigation, notice, (v) criticize, judge, reexamine, revise, recapitulate, 4. prove; synonyms (v) demonstrate, attest, confirm, manifest, establish, evidence, show, approve, assert, authenticate, corroborate, essay, evince, test, try; antonym (v) disprove
- **ΠΕΡΕΒΟДИТИ** transfer; *synonyms* (*n*) conveyance, assignment, (*v*) convey, carry, change, remove, shift, exchange, send, transmit, transport, commit, consign, deliver, give; *antonyms* (*v*) hold, keep.
- перевозити 1. transport; synonyms (n) rapture, (v) transfer, transmit, bear, carry, delight, enrapture, exile, banish, convey, enchant, ferry, ravish, send, take; antonyms (v) disenchant, remain, 2. bear (ведмідь); synonyms (v) accept, abide, acquit, stand, afford, allow, apply, assume, behave, brook, comport, conduct, digest, endure, hold, 3. carry; synonyms (v) bring, pack, transport, load, admit, adopt, act, capture, cart, channel, contain, deport, get, handle, haul, 4. convey; synonyms (v) communicate, express, fetch, impart, mean, cause, cede, consign, deliver, grant, pass, recount, say, show, supply, 5. ship; synonyms (n) boat, craft, bottom, (v) dispatch, forward, embark, move, post, charge, mail.
- **IIEPEBOPOT** revolution; *synonyms* (*n*) change, gyration, insurrection, mutiny, rebellion, revolt, rotation, turn, alteration, cycle, coup, circle, circulation, (*v*) circuit, (*adj*) disturbance.
- **перегляд 1.** revision; *synonyms* (*n*) alteration, change, modification, amendment, review, revisal, revise, reconsideration, adjustment, rewriting, improvement, rescript, retrospect, **2.** review; *synonyms* (*n*) examination, critique, inspection, commentary,

- comment, parade, magazine, criticism, investigation, (v) check, survey, criticize, examine, inspect, judge.
- **ΠΕΡΕΓ**JI**Ι**AT**I** review; *synonyms* (n) examination, critique, inspection, retrospect, commentary, comment, parade, magazine, criticism, investigation, (ν) check, survey, criticize, examine, inspect.
- **переговори 1**. negotiation; *synonyms* (*n*) mediation, bargain, parley, transaction, arbitration, diplomacy, dealing, talks, **2**. discussion; *synonyms* (*n*) argument, conference, conversation, debate, discourse, controversy, consultation, dialogue, consideration, dispute, negotiation, talk, contention, contest, chat.
- **перегони** гасе; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, dash, family, career, competition, people, kin, nation, (*v*) course, run, rush, fly, hasten, hurry, (*adj*) lineage.
- перегороджувати bar (бар); *synonyms* (*n*) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (*v*) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; *antonyms* (*v*) permit, allow.
- nepeq 1. front; synonyms (adj) head, fore, anterior, preceding, (n) countenance, forefront, appearance, disguise, facade, frontage, brow, audacity, (v) face, confront, look; antonyms (n) rear, end, (v) back, 2. before; synonyms (prep) beyond, facing, (adv) above, ahead, afore, ago, earlier, already, forward, previously, beforehand, ere, formerly, heretofore, (adj) prior; antonyms (prep) later, behind, after, afterward.
- передавати 1. deliver; synonyms (v) consign, bear, carry, rescue, save, abandon, bring, liberate, pronounce, render, return, send, utter, drop, acquit, 2. give; synonyms (v) allow, bestow, extend, accord, commit, donate, contribute, convey, deliver, dispense, endow, grant, present, yield, administer; antonyms (v) withdraw, take, withhold, 3. convey; synonyms (v) communicate, channel, conduct, express, fetch, transfer, transmit, impart, transport, mean, cause, cede, ferry, pass, recount, 4. communicate; synonyms (v) advertise, advise, announce, apprise, commune, intimate, relay, reveal, acquaint, divulge, share, talk, tell, interact, proclaim, 5. present; synonyms (adj) confer, current, (n) gift, donation, offering, presentation, (v) display, give, introduce, prefer, offer, perform, gratuity, award, exhibit; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (adv) absent, 6. transfer; synonyms (n) conveyance, assignment, transference, delivery, disposal, (v) change, remove, shift, exchange, interchange, move, transplant, delegate, switch, convert; antonyms (v) hold, keep, 7. pass; synonyms (v) flow, happen, lead, overtake, live, advance, die, elapse, exceed, lapse, leave, proceed, surpass, (adj) go, run; antonym (v) fail, 8. reach; synonyms (v) range, obtain, achieve, attain, get, make, accomplish, touch, equal, form, (n) compass, stretch, extent, gain, area.
- передача 1. transmission; *synonyms* (*n*) circulation, conveyance, contagion, transfer, broadcast, communication, drive, infection, spread, transmittal, transmittance, dissemination, passage, transmitting, 2. disposal; *synonyms* (*n*) disposition, administration, distribution, organization, sale, alienation, classification, adjustment, arrangement, control, direction, dispensation, order, adhibition, 3. assignment;

- synonyms (n) allocation, allotment, appointment, assigning, mission, apportionment, stint, assignation, business, chore, charge, commission, consignment, designation, duty, 4. transfer; synonyms (n) assignment, (v) convey, carry, change, remove, shift, exchange, send, transmit, transport, commit, consign, deliver, give, interchange; antonyms (v) hold, keep.
- **ΠΕΡΕΡΙΘΑΨΑΤΗ 1.** forecast; *synonyms* (n) calculation, forecasting, forethought, (v) presage, anticipate, augur, calculate, portend, bode, estimate, figure, forebode, foretell, predict, prognosticate, **2**. anticipate; *synonyms* (v) antedate, expect, forecast, forestall, think, apprehend, divine, guess, presume, prevent, intercept, trust, await, envision, foreknow, **3**. provide; *synonyms* (v) give, contribute, furnish, offer, accommodate, administer, afford, cater, equip, supply, allow, fit, endow, outfit, nourish.
- **ПЕРЕДБАЧЕННЯ 1.** anticipation; *synonyms* (n) expectation, forecast, hope, foresight, prevention, hopefulness, expectancy, foretaste, forethought, precaution, prediction, presentiment, prevision, (v) outlook, prospect; *antonym* (n) despair, **2.** prediction; *synonyms* (n) divination, forecasting, announcement, anticipation, augury, prognostication, prophecy, vaticination, foretelling, calculation, foreboding, guess, soothsaying, foreshadowing.
- передбачливий cautious; synonyms (adj) careful, conservative, guarded, prudent, watchful, attentive, cagey, chary, circumspect, discreet, judicious, provident, reserved, shy, thoughtful; antonyms (adj) rash, reckless, careless, impetuous, impulsive, open, incautious, irresponsible, wasteful.
- ПЕРЕДБАЧУВАНИЙ 1. assumed; synonyms (adj) false, sham, affected, counterfeit, fake, feigned, fictitious, pretended, reputed, artificial, alleged, assumptive, hypothetical, phony, spurious, 2. supposed; synonyms (adj) conjectural, assumed, imaginary, putative, apparent, ostensible, suppositional, professed, suppositious, suppositious, theoretical; antonyms (adj) real, actual.
- **переддень** eve; *synonyms* (*n*) evening, eventide, apex, cover, nightfall, sunset, top, lid, point, summit, verge, vertex.
- **ПЕРЕДИХНУТИ** spell; *synonyms* (*n*) magic, fascination, bout, conjuration, incantation, period, sorcery, enchantment, turn, span, bewitchment, space, captivation, attack, (*v*) charm.
- **ПЕРЕДМІСТЯ** outskirts; *synonyms* (*n*) suburb, edge, periphery, environs, border, fringe, boundary, skirt, precincts, frontier, distance, outpost, outside, slub, slurb.
- **ПЕРЕДМОВА** introduction; *synonyms* (n) induction, beginning, foreword, insertion, preface, presentation, entrance, initiation, preamble, preliminary, prelude, admission, entry, intro, opening; *antonyms* (n) finale, export, postscript.
- передній 1. front; synonyms (adj) head, fore, anterior, preceding, (n) countenance, forefront, appearance, disguise, facade, frontage, brow, audacity, (v) face, confront, look; antonyms (n) rear, end, (v) back, 2. forward; synonyms (adv) onward, ahead, along, (adj) bold, audacious, advanced, early, brazen, confident, (n)

- further, (v) advance, expedite, promote, cultivate, (phr) dispatch; antonyms (adv) backward, (adj) shy, posterior.
- передовий 1. foremost; synonyms (adj) best, leading, front, central, top, essential, initial, (adv) first, firstly, (n) chief, capital, cardinal, main, paramount, principal; antonyms (adj) minor, last, 2. advanced; synonyms (adj) sophisticated, progressive, senior, higher, modern, new, precocious, late, cultured, developed, elevated, forward, liberal, ripe, superior; antonyms (adj) conservative, old-fashioned, inferior, 3. progressive; synonyms (adj) advanced, gradual, active, radical, consecutive, revolutionary, positive, alphabetical, avantagarde, broad, broad-minded, chronological, dynamic, enterprising, (n) imperfect; antonym (adj) traditional.
- **передплата** subscription; *synonyms* (*n*) contribution, donation, offering, gift, pledge, enrollment, obedience, submission, (*v*) allowance, subsidy, subvention.
- **ПЕРЕДРАЖНЮВАТИ** monkey (мавпа); synonyms (n) ape, imp, primate, rascal, scamp, (v) tinker, meddle, tamper, trifle, cuckoo, echo, imitator.
- **ПЕРЕДСМЕРТНИЙ** dying; *synonyms* (*adj*) vanishing, last, moribund, (*n*) death, demise, decease; *antonyms* (*adj*) thriving, opening, well.
- **ПЕРЕДУМОВА** background; *synonyms* (n) backdrop, groundwork, setting, basis, context, education, environment, scene, backcloth, panorama, atmosphere, experience, ground, information, preparation.
- **передчасний** premature; *synonyms* (*adj*) early, precocious, untimely, immature, forward, inopportune, previous, rash, unripe.
- **ПЕРЕДЧУВАТИ** anticipate; *synonyms* (v) antedate, expect, forecast, forestall, foretell, think, calculate, estimate, apprehend, divine, guess, predict, presume, prevent, intercept.
- **ПЕРЕЖИВАННЯ** trial; *synonyms* (*n*) test, examination, experiment, affliction, essay, hardship, hearing, adversity, audition, attempt, difficulty, distress, effort, endeavor, (*adi*) experimental.
- **IIEPEЖИТОК** survival; *synonyms* (*n*) existence, relic, life, endurance, selection, remnant, continuance, trace, choice, continuity, excerpt, extract, landmark, option, patience; *antonym* (*n*) extinction.
- ПЕРЕЇЖДЖАТИ move; synonyms (v) act, affect, carry, excite, go, impel, instigate, maneuver, touch, travel, flow, bear, (n) motion, drive, transfer; antonym (v) stay.
- **ΠΕΡΕΙЗД 1.** removal; *synonyms* (n) transfer, dismissal, elimination, exclusion, expulsion, shift, ablation, remove, move, withdrawal, eviction, remotion, deposition, relocation, banishment; *antonyms* (n) addition, insertion, retention, **2.** movement; *synonyms* (n) motion, action, activity, campaign, crusade, advancement, cause, drive, passage, drift, flow, inclination, effort, evolution, front.
- **ΠΕΡΕΪΧΑΤ***M* move; *synonyms* (*v*) act, affect, carry, excite, go, impel, instigate, maneuver, touch, travel, flow, bear, (*n*) motion, drive, transfer; *antonym* (*v*) stay.
- ΠΕΡΕЙΜΑΤИ adopt; synonyms (v) accept, admit, affiliate, assume, borrow, espouse, pass, take, acquire, choose, embrace, follow, imitate, naturalize, prefer; antonym (v) reject.

- **Переказ 1.** tradition; *synonyms* (*n*) convention, custom, habit, practice, legend, folklore, heritage, lore, routine, myth, **2.** rehearsal; *synonyms* (*n*) narration, recital, preparation, repetition, description, account, explanation, narrative
- **перекидання 1.** turnover; *synonyms* (*n*) overturn, revolution, sales, upset, pastry, change, overthrow, proceeds, derangement, disorder, disturbance, earnings, flapjack, income, (*v*) harrow, **2.** upset; *synonyms* (*v*) agitate, disquiet, bother, confuse, disturb, perturb, reverse, subvert, unsettle, (*adj*) unsettled, hurt, agitated, confused, (*n*) trouble, distress; *antonyms* (*v*) calm, please, encourage, soothe, (*adj*) pleased, confident.
- **перекидати** upset; *synonyms* (v) overturn, agitate, disquiet, overthrow, bother, confuse, disturb, perturb, reverse, (*adj*) unsettled, hurt, (n) disorder, trouble, distress, disturbance; *antonyms* (v) calm, please, encourage, soothe, (*adj*) pleased, confident.
- **перекидатися** upset; *synonyms* (v) overturn, agitate, disquiet, overthrow, bother, confuse, disturb, perturb, reverse, (*adj*) unsettled, hurt, (n) disorder, trouble, distress, disturbance; *antonyms* (v) calm, please, encourage, soothe, (*adj*) pleased, confident.
- **ПЕРЕКИНУТИЙ** upset; *synonyms* (v) overturn, agitate, disquiet, overthrow, bother, confuse, disturb, perturb, reverse, (adj) unsettled, hurt, (n) disorder, trouble, distress, disturbance; *antonyms* (v) calm, please, encourage, soothe, (adj) pleased, confident.
- переклад 1. translation; *synonyms* (*n*) displacement, interpretation, rendering, transformation, version, rendition, paraphrase, metamorphosis, conversion, shift, adaptation, alteration, consecration, construction, (*v*) transmission, 2. Version; *synonyms* (*n*) reading, translation, variation, account, description, variant, lection, report, story, explanation, form, light, sketch, summary, 3. interpretation; *synonyms* (*n*) exposition, clarification, commentary, illustration, definition, interpreting, analysis, performance, understanding, explication, gloss, evaluation, meaning, representation, sense.
- перекладати interpret; synonyms (v) clarify, construe, elucidate, illustrate, read, understand, comment, gloss, decipher, explain, explicate, render, depict, illuminate, consider.
- **перекладка** beam; *synonyms* (*n*) blaze, glow, ray, timber, flash, joist, light, (*v*) glare, air, broadcast, gleam, grin, radiate, smile, (*adj*) shine.
- **IIEPEKJIACTU** interpret; *synonyms* (v) clarify, construe, elucidate, illustrate, read, understand, comment, gloss, decipher, explain, explicate, render, depict, illuminate, consider.
- IIEPEKOHAŬTE persuade; synonyms (v) convince, inveigle, allure, assure, cajole, coax, entice, induce, influence, argue, exhort, lure, incite, get, tempt; antonyms (v) discourage, dissuade.
- **ПЕРЕКОНАНИЙ** confirmed; *synonyms* (*adj*) chronic, inveterate, assured, habitual, constant, affirmed, definite, established, fixed, ingrained, set, valid, accustomed; *antonyms* (*adj*) unconfirmed, unproven.
- **IIEPEKOHAHICTЬ** conviction; *synonyms* (n) assurance, belief, certainty, condemnation, confidence,

- persuasion, faith, trust, firmness, creed, determination, doctrine, judgment, reliance, security; *antonym* (n) uncertainty.
- переконання 1. creed; synonyms (n) belief, conviction, gospel, religion, credo, faith, denomination, doctrine, persuasion, credenda, 2. persuasion; synonyms (n) opinion, inducement, creed, exhortation, idea, enticement, sentiment, suasion, view, mind, notion, judgment, feeling, confidence, thought; antonyms (n) force, pressure, 3. conviction; synonyms (n) assurance, certainty, condemnation, trust, firmness, determination, reliance, security, sentence; antonym (n) uncertainty, 4. belief; synonyms (n) assumption, impression, supposition, credence, credit, dogma, expectation, guess, hope, hypothesis, tenet, theory, attitude, concept, conception; antonyms (n) disbelief, unbelief, 5. opinion; synonyms (n) advice, conjecture, meaning, counsel, comment, estimate, decision, estimation, look, position, verdict, appraisal, eye, contention, criticism.
- **ΠΕΡΕΚΟΗΑΤΗ 1.** convince; synonyms (ν) assure, persuade, convert, sway, convict, entice, induce, reassure, disarm, (adj) satisfy; antonyms (ν) discourage, dissuade, 2. persuade; synonyms (ν) convince, inveigle, allure, cajole, coax, influence, argue, exhort, lure, incite, get, tempt, wheedle, impel, lead.
- переконливий 1. persuasive; synonyms (adj) convincing, forcible, cogent, eloquent, forceful, compelling, strong, suasive, effective, influential, potent, attractive, fluent, hortatory, impressive; antonyms (adj) unconvincing, weak, halfhearted, 2. decisive; synonyms (adj) conclusive, critical, crucial, decided, definite, final, important, positive, authoritative, definitive, determined, peremptory, (v) absolute, categorical, determinate; antonyms (adj) indecisive, uncertain, unsure.
- **IIEPEKOHJIMBICTb** persuasion; *synonyms* (*n*) belief, opinion, faith, inducement, creed, exhortation, idea, enticement, sentiment, suasion, view, mind, notion, judgment, (*adj*) conviction; *antonyms* (*n*) force, pressure.
- переконувати 1. convince; synonyms (v) assure, persuade, convert, sway, convict, entice, induce, reassure, disarm, (adj) satisfy; antonyms (v) discourage, dissuade, 2. argue; synonyms (v) contend, oppose, quarrel, reason, altercate, assert, attest, contest, convince, debate, declare, discuss, expostulate, fight, (n) dispute; antonyms (v) agree, deny, 3. persuade; synonyms (v) inveigle, allure, cajole, coax, influence, argue, exhort, lure, incite, get, tempt, wheedle, impel, lead, instigate, 4. satisfy; synonyms (v) please, content, fill, indulge, meet, sate, satiate, appease, answer, assuage, delight, execute, fulfill, (adj) suffice, do; antonyms (v) dissatisfy, disappoint, displease, intensify, 5. urge; synonyms (n) goad, spur, drive, impulse, enforce, (v) push, advocate, press, force, inspire, prompt, promote, entreat, expedite, (adj) quicken, 6. bring (приносити); synonyms (v) convey, fetch, bear, carry, conduct, put, take, reduce, afford, bestow, deliver, land, move, provide, attract, 7. assure; synonyms (v) guarantee, certify, secure, affirm, ascertain, ensure, promise, vouch, confirm, cover, insure, check, swear, control, (n) warrant, 8. reason; synonyms (n) mind,

- account, intellect, occasion, argument, object, purpose, rationality, understanding, basis, explanation, (v) cause, conclude, deduce, ground.
- перекривати 1. overlap; *synonyms* (*n*) lap, intersection, overlay, convergence, (*v*) fold, cross, concur, match, overreach, override, overgo, overjump, 2. bridge; *synonyms* (*n*) span, viaduct, pontoon, tie, crossing, nosepiece, bluff, (*v*) stretch, connect, link, traverse.
- **IIEPEKPY YEHHS** distortion; *synonyms* (n) aberration, contortion, deformation, misrepresentation, exaggeration, corruption, malformation, torture, twist, twisting, caricature, (adj) deformity, (v) perversion.
- **ПЕРЕЛИВЧАСТИЙ** shot; *synonyms* (n) gunshot, injection, go, fling, ball, crack, shoot, picture, attempt, bang, bullet, chance, discharge, effort, endeavor.
- **IIE PEJIIK 1.** list; synonyms (n) catalog, catalogue, file, inclination, index, schedule, calendar, enumeration, inventory, (v) lean, tilt, enter, enumerate, incline, itemize, **2.** schedule; synonyms (n) list, agenda, program, table, roll, chart, docket, plan, fare, arrangement, diagram, record, (v) register, book, arrange.
- **ΠΕΡΕ**JIT migration; *synonyms* (n) exodus, movement, journey, transmigration, departure, exile, colonization, metempsychosis, evacuation, flood, travel, (ν) flit, flitting.
- **ПЕРЕЛОМНИЙ** critical; *synonyms* (*adj*) acute, decisive, delicate, important, pressing, severe, ticklish, urgent, vital, crucial, dangerous, fastidious, grave, imperative, (v) censorious; *antonyms* (*adj*) complimentary, trivial, positive, flattering, insignificant, approving, unimportant.
- **перемагати 1.** win; *synonyms* (*v*) acquire, gain, get, attain, obtain, conquer, achieve, earn, prevail, secure, take, succeed, carry, vanquish, (*n*) triumph; *antonyms* (*v*) lose, (*n*) defeat, **2.** beat; *synonyms* (*v*) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (*n*) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence.
- **ΠΕΡΕΜΙΨΚΑ** bridge; *synonyms* (n) span, viaduct, pontoon, tie, crossing, nosepiece, bluff, (ν) stretch, connect, link, traverse, cross.
- IIEPEMIHA 1. variation; *synonyms* (n) alteration, change, difference, divergence, mutation, variance, deviation, discrepancy, departure, fluctuation, disagreement, dissimilarity, permutation, contrast, distinction; *antonym* (n) similarity, 2. change; *synonyms* (n) shift, barter, modification, variation, move, (v) exchange, alter, adapt, alternate, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn, twist; *antonyms* (v) stay, leave, idle, maintain.
- ПЕРЕМІННИЙ variable; synonyms (adj) unstable, changeable, fickle, inconstant, capricious, erratic, fitful, mutable, uncertain, unsettled, unsteady, fluctuating, inconsistent, shifting, variant; antonyms (adj) constant, fixed, invariable, regular, set, smooth.
- **IIEPEMIII**(ATII shift; *synonyms* (n) interchange, turn, move, switch, conversion, (v) change, exchange, remove, quibble, alter, budge, convert, displace, transfer, fluctuate.
- **переміщатися** shift; *synonyms* (n) interchange, turn, move, switch, conversion, (v) change, exchange, remove,

- quibble, alter, budge, convert, displace, transfer, fluctuate
- переміщення 1. shift; synonyms (n) interchange, turn, move, switch, conversion, (v) change, exchange, remove, quibble, alter, budge, convert, displace, transfer, fluctuate, 2. removal; synonyms (n) dismissal, elimination, exclusion, expulsion, shift, ablation, withdrawal, eviction, remotion, deposition, relocation, banishment, departure, displacement, moving; antonyms (n) addition, insertion, retention, 3. moving; synonyms (adj) active, affecting, emotional, exciting, impressive, mobile, pitiful, poignant, touching, inspiring, movable, imposing, (n) movement, transport, advance; antonyms (adj) motionless, still, depressing, stationary, unemotional, 4. translation; synonyms (n) interpretation, rendering, transformation, version, rendition, paraphrase, metamorphosis, adaptation, alteration, consecration, construction, definition, edition, induction, (v) transmission, 5. transfer; synonyms (n) conveyance, assignment, transference, delivery, (v) convey, carry, send, transmit, commit, consign, deliver, give, pass, transplant, delegate; antonyms (v) hold, keep.
- **περεμογε 1**. victory; *synonyms* (n) triumph, conquest, success, mastery, subjugation, superiority, achievement, expugnation, feat; *antonyms* (n) defeat, beating, failure, loss, **2**. win; *synonyms* (v) acquire, gain, get, attain, obtain, conquer, achieve, earn, prevail, secure, take, succeed, carry, vanquish, procure; *antonym* (v) lose.
- **IIEPEMOFTH 1.** whip; *synonyms* (n) coachman, (v) scourge, lash, flog, strap, beat, flagellate, goad, punish, stir, thrash, trounce, wallop, chastise, cane, **2**. overcome; *synonyms* (v) conquer, crush, subdue, vanquish, defeat, master, overpower, hurdle, overwhelm, prevail, subjugate, surmount, demolish, affect, (*adj*) beaten; *antonyms* (v) fail, (*adj*) victorious, unimpressed.
- **ПЕРЕМОЖЕНИЙ** beaten; *synonyms* (v) beat, (adj) battered, overpowered, conquered, routed, overcome; *antonym* (adj) victorious.
- переможець 1. victor; synonyms (n) conqueror, champion, winner, master, champ, superior; antonym (n) loser, 2. winner; synonyms (n) success, achiever, hit; antonyms (n) failure, flop.
- **переможний** triumphant; *synonyms* (*adj*) jubilant, victorious, successful, triumphal, exulting, winning, conquering, elated, gleeful, joyful, prideful, rejoicing, (*v*) exultant; *antonym* (*adj*) unsuccessful.
- перенесення transfer; *synonyms* (*n*) conveyance, assignment, (*v*) convey, carry, change, remove, shift, exchange, send, transmit, transport, commit, consign, deliver, give; *antonyms* (*v*) hold, keep.
- **ΠΕΡΕΗΕCTU** transfer; *synonyms* (n) conveyance, assignment, (v) convey, carry, change, remove, shift, exchange, send, transmit, transport, commit, consign, deliver, give; *antonyms* (v) hold, keep.
- **IIEPEHICCA** bridge; *synonyms* (*n*) span, viaduct, pontoon, tie, crossing, nosepiece, bluff, (*v*) stretch, connect, link, traverse, cross.
- **ΠΕΡΕΗΟCUTH 1.** transfer; *synonyms* (n) conveyance, assignment, (v) convey, carry, change, remove, shift, exchange, send, transmit, transport, commit, consign, deliver, give; *antonyms* (v) hold, keep, **2**. carry;

- synonyms (v) bear, bring, conduct, take, acquit, behave, accept, comport, pack, load, assume, admit, adopt, act, capture, 3. bear (Ведмідь); synonyms (v) abide, stand, afford, allow, apply, brook, digest, endure, produce, suffer, support, teem, tolerate, undergo, wear.
- **ПЕРЕНОСНИЙ 1**. hand (рука); *synonyms* (n) deal, aid, applause, employee, paw, worker, (v) deliver, give, pass, commit, bestow, afford, communicate, reach, grant, 2. portable; *synonyms* (adj) mobile, movable, portative, light, convenient, manageable, pocket, carriageable, cartable, compact, haulable, itinerant, lightweight, supportable, wieldy; *antonym* (adj) fixed.
- **перепис** census; *synonyms* (*n*) list, returns, cense, file, nosecount, roll, score, ballot, condition, rank, sample, (*v*) poll, recapitulation, muster.
- **ΠΕΡΕΠИСУВАННЯ** transcription; synonyms (n) transcript, recording, copy, arrangement, record, reproduction, action, agreement, arranging, imitation, notes, organisation, organization, placement, preparation.
- переписувати сору; *synonyms* (n) imitation, trace, transcription, forgery, (v) counterfeit, imitate, ape, duplicate, model, pattern, follow, echo, fake, mimic, record; *antonym* (n) original.
- **переповнений 1**. crowded; *synonyms* (*adj*) close, compact, congested, busy, dense, full, packed, populous, jammed, cramped, teeming, thick, tight, (*n*) thronged; *antonyms* (*adj*) empty, sparse, **2**. packed; *synonyms* (*adj*) crowded, filled, overcrowded, brimming; *antonym* (*adj*) deserted.
- **переполох** stir; *synonyms* (v) arouse, budge, move, rouse, affect, agitate, excite, inspire, go, (n) movement, commotion, disturbance, excitement, agitation, (adj) bustle
- перепона 1. obstacle; *synonyms* (*n*) barrier, difficulty, drawback, check, hitch, obstruction, interruption, bar, deterrent, hurdle, let, (*v*) impediment, hindrance, block, delay, **2**. bar (бар); *synonyms* (*n*) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (*v*) ban, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose, confine; *antonyms* (*v*) permit, allow
- **IHEPEHPABA** crossing; *synonyms* (n) cross, ford, transit, crossbreeding, hybridization, intersection, passage, voyage, crossroad, crosswalk, crossway, cruise, flight, interbreeding, junction.
- **ПЕРЕПРОШЕННЯ** apology; *synonyms* (n) excuse, plea, amends, defense, justification, regret, reason, alibi, explanation, vindication, acknowledgment, apologia, reparation.
- περεπγετκα 1. permit; synonyms (v) allow, give, license, admit, leave, let, bear, endure, have, agree, (n) consent, licence, pass, permission, (adj) grant; antonyms (v) forbid, ban, prevent, prohibit, stop, 2. protection (3αΧИСТ); synonyms (n) defense, care, conservation, cover, custody, defence, guardianship, security, shelter, aegis, auspices, preservation, shield, bulwark, (v) guard; antonym (n) destruction.
- **перерва 1**. break; *synonyms* (*v*) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (*n*) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; *antonyms* (*v*) repair, obey, honor, mend, (*n*) continuation, **2**. pause;

- synonyms (n) break, intermission, rest, gap, interval, breather, cessation, hesitation, (v) halt, adjournment, delay, hesitate, desist, cease, (adj) discontinue; antonyms (n) decisiveness, (v) continue, 3. interval; synonyms (n) distance, interlude, hiatus, interim, period, span, length, space, time, interstice, blank, lull, recess, relief, (adv) meantime, 4. rest; synonyms (n) remnant, repose, balance, relaxation, residue, leisure, quiet, (v) nap, remain, sleep, ease, lie, perch, abide, (adj) remainder; antonym (v) work.
- **IIEPEPUBATU** break; *synonyms* (v) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (n) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; *antonyms* (v) repair, obey, honor, mend, (n) continuation.
- **ΠΕΡΕΡΙΒΊΑ**CTICTЬ discretion; *synonyms* (n) caution, circumspection, delicacy, prudence, diplomacy, calculation, discernment, discreteness, tact, confidentiality, choice, carefulness, cautiousness, perceptiveness, care; *antonym* (n) recklessness.
- περεροδκα 1. alteration; synonyms (n) adaptation, adjustment, change, revision, shift, changeover, amendment, conversion, deviation, metamorphosis, modification, transformation, turn, variation, movement, 2. adaptation; synonyms (n) accommodation, alteration, version, reworking, adaption, fitness, 3. revision; synonyms (n) review, revisal, revise, reconsideration, rewriting, improvement, rescript, retrospect.
- **ΠΕΡΕΡΟΕ JIST M 1.** alter; *synonyms* (*v*) adapt, change, move, adjust, affect, amend, castrate, convert, correct, shift, transform, turn, vary, alternate, distort; *antonym* (*v*) maintain, **2.** adapt; *synonyms* (*v*) accommodate, acclimate, fashion, alter, arrange, assimilate, edit, familiarize, gear, modify, shape, suit, tailor, accustom, (*adj*) fit, **3.** change; *synonyms* (*n*) alteration, barter, modification, variation, adjustment, alternation, amendment, commutation, conversion, (*v*) exchange, cash, switch, transpose, twist, commute; *antonyms* (*v*) stay, leave, idle.
- **περεсадκа** transfer; *synonyms* (*n*) conveyance, assignment, (*v*) convey, carry, change, remove, shift, exchange, send, transmit, transport, commit, consign, deliver, give; *antonyms* (*v*) hold, keep.
- **INEPECEJIEHHЯ** migration; *synonyms* (n) exodus, movement, journey, transmigration, departure, exile, colonization, metempsychosis, evacuation, flood, travel, (v) flit, flitting.
- **IIEPECUJIKA** transmission; *synonyms* (*n*) circulation, conveyance, contagion, transfer, broadcast, communication, drive, infection, spread, transmittal, transmittance, dissemination, passage, transmitting.
- пересічний 1. average; synonyms (adj) mean, median, fair, common, medium, middle, middling, normal, ordinary, intermediate, mediocre, mid, moderate, tolerable, (n) norm; antonyms (adj) exceptional, extraordinary, abnormal, unusual, (v) maximum, minimum, 2. ordinary; synonyms (adj) average, familiar, usual, commonplace, everyday, habitual, banal, conventional, frequent, indifferent, inferior, (n) customary, accustomed, (v) general, inconspicuous;

- antonyms (adj) incredible, outstanding, peculiar, strange, special, distinguished, famous.
- **ΠΕΡΕ**С**JIATH** send; *synonyms* (v) despatch, pass, convey, deliver, dispatch, forward, give, mail, post, carry, divert, project, beam, cast, channel.
- **переслідування 1.** pursuit; *synonyms* (n) quest, chase, hunt, persecution, search, career, interest, job, business, employment, performance, following, occupation, pastime, aspiration, **2.** chase; *synonyms* (n) game, (v) pursue, expel, follow, stalk, track, trail, chamfer, pursuit, race, seek, evict, course, dog, drive.
- переслідувати 1. pursue; synonyms (v) chase, follow, dog, hunt, prosecute, course, haunt, hound, persist, stalk, tail, conduct, practice, court, keep, 2. follow; synonyms (v) pursue, adhere, adopt, accompany, comprehend, continue, ensue, grasp, realize, succeed, track, emulate, drive, fathom, (adj) catch; antonyms (v) precede, guide, head, lead, 3. chase; synonyms (n) game, search, quest, following, (v) expel, trail, chamfer, pursuit, race, seek, evict, furrow, oust, shadow, (adj) emboss, 4. bay; synonyms (n) alcove, bark, recess, cry, harbor, fiord, sound, cove, embayment, gulf, (adj) brown, (v) yap, roar, bellow, howl.
- **IIEPECTABATU** cease; *synonyms* (v) end, break, quit, stop, terminate, abstain, close, conclude, discontinue, drop, desist, expire, halt, (n) finish, (adj) abate; *antonyms* (v) continue, begin.
- пересувати remove; *synonyms* (v) oust, take, pull, eject, expel, deduct, discharge, strip, delete, erase, evacuate, extract, abolish, get, (*adj*) clear; *antonyms* (v) insert, install, place.
- перетворення 1. conversion; synonyms (n) alteration, change, changeover, adaptation, exchange, transformation, adjustment, amendment, modification, passage, shift, transfer, transition, version, (adj) salvation, 2. transformation; synonyms (n) conversion, metamorphosis, mutation, metabolism, translation, transmutation, improvement, rectification. transmogrification, 3. passage; synonyms (n) aisle, course, channel, corridor, gangway, hall, journey, entry, way, entrance, lobby, duct, opening, avenue, citation, 4. reduction: synonyms (n) contraction, decrease. decrement, diminution, rebate, cut, cutback, decline, depreciation, discount, drop, lessening, reducing, deduction, degradation; antonyms (n) increase, growth, intensification, strengthening, expansion, extension, restoration, rise.
- **перетворити** transform; *synonyms* (*v*) change, alter, convert, metamorphose, modify, translate, turn, become, transfigure, transmute, process, vary, reform, transmogrify, adapt.
- **перетворювати 1**. convert; *synonyms* (*v*) alter, change, adapt, reform, commute, invert, exchange, modify, switch, transform, turn, become, (*n*) proselyte, neophyte, (*adj*) believer, **2**. transform; *synonyms* (*v*) convert, metamorphose, translate, transfigure, transmute, process, vary, transmogrify, affect, interpret, mold, shape, transpose, **3**. reduce; *synonyms* (*v*) lower, pare, abbreviate, curtail, cut, debase, abate, condense, contract, diminish, shorten, concentrate, compress, (*adj*)

- abridge, lessen; *antonyms* (v) increase, bolster, expand, enlarge, exacerbate, intensify.
- **IIEPETUH** crossing; *synonyms* (n) cross, ford, transit, crossbreeding, hybridization, intersection, passage, voyage, crossroad, crosswalk, crossway, cruise, flight, interbreeding, junction.
- **перетинати** cross; *synonyms* (n) crisscross, affliction, (v) intersect, baffle, cover, thwart, (adj) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; *antonyms* (v) uncross, (adj) calm, good-tempered.
- **IIEPEXBAT** waist; *synonyms* (*n*) waistline, shank, middle, belly, blouse, cannon, stem, arch, (*adj*) neck, stricture, wasp.
- перехід 1. transition; synonyms (n) change, passage, transit, alteration, changeover, conversion, modulation,
  2. passage; synonyms (n) aisle, course, channel, corridor, gangway, hall, journey, entry, way, entrance, lobby, duct, opening, avenue, citation.
- **перехідний** transitional; *synonyms* (*adj*) intermediate, provisional, changeable, middle, midway, transitionary, intermediary, halfway.
- переходити 1. cross; synonyms (n) crisscross, affliction, (v) intersect, baffle, cover, thwart, (adj) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; antonyms (v) uncross, (adj) calm, good-tempered, 2. proceed; synonyms (v) go, advance, move, pass, originate, ensue, run, flow, extend, arise, continue, emanate, happen, issue, operate.
- **перехресний** cross; *synonyms* (*n*) crisscross, affliction, (*v*) intersect, baffle, cover, thwart, (*adj*) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; *antonyms* (*v*) uncross, (*adj*) calm, good-tempered.
- **IIEPEXPECTЯ 1.** crossing; *synonyms* (*n*) cross, ford, transit, crossbreeding, hybridization, intersection, passage, voyage, crossroad, crosswalk, crossway, cruise, flight, interbreeding, junction, **2.** turning; *synonyms* (*adj*) revolving, rotating, rotary, spinning, wheeling, winding, (*n*) turn, revolution, bend, deviation, conversion, diversion, version.
- **перець** pepper; *synonyms* (*n*) capsicum, peppercorn, (*v*) pelt, bombard, sprinkle, (*adj*) salt, season, spice.
- перешкода 1. obstacle; synonyms (n) barrier, difficulty, drawback, check, hitch, obstruction, interruption, bar, deterrent, hurdle, let, (v) impediment, hindrance, block, delay, 2. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose, confine; antonyms (v) permit, allow, 3. handicap; synonyms (n) disability, disablement, disadvantage, obstacle, penalty, baulk, encumbrance, impairment, (v) hamper, embarrass, encumber, hinder, disable, cramp, burden; antonyms (v) advantage, benefit, 4, interference; synonyms (n) disturbance, handicap, blocking, inhibition, intercession. intervention, antagonism, intermeddling, disruption, distraction, clashing, interposition, noise, (v) collision, (adj) intrusion, 5. barrier; synonyms (n) bulwark, rampart, restraint, boundary, fence, partition, wall, barrage, guard, protection, blockage, hedge, roadblock, safeguard, screen, **6**. difficulty; synonyms (n) trouble,

- bother, asperity, jam, difficultness, fix, hardship, inconvenience, strait, adversity, ado, knot, complexity, complication, danger; *antonyms* (n) ease, simplicity, help, 7. nuisance; *synonyms* (n) annoyance, harassment, hassle, irritation, pain, pest, mischief, bore, botheration, plague, bane, bind, menace, trial, (adj) grievance; *antonym* (n) pleasure.
- перешкоджати 1. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow, 2. block; synonyms (n) bar, pad, clog, cluster, barrier, blocking, chock, (v) hinder, encumber, halt, lock, parry, plug, blockade, (adj) lump; antonyms (v) free, unblock, open, 3. prevent; synonyms (v) anticipate, forbid, avert, avoid, debar, forestall, hamper, impede, obviate, preclude, check, foil, frustrate, inhibit, interfere; antonym (v) encourage.
- **IHEPEHIKOJU** difficulty; *synonyms* (*n*) hindrance, impediment, trouble, bother, asperity, jam, barrier, difficultness, fix, hardship, inconvenience, obstacle, strait, adversity, disadvantage; *antonyms* (*n*) ease, simplicity, advantage, help.
- **IIEPEIIIKOДИТИ** intervene; *synonyms* (v) interfere, intercede, interpose, mediate, arbitrate, meddle, interject, intermediate.
- **ПЕРИ**ЛА rail; *synonyms* (n) bar, balustrade, handrail, railing, fence, banister, track, path, pale, paling, bolt, barrier, (v) inveigh, vituperate, fulminate.
- **периферійний** peripheral; *synonyms* (*adj*) exterior, outer, external, marginal, extraneous, outlying, outside, nonessential, outdoor, frivolous, peripherical, superficial, divergent, extreme, (*n*) component; *antonyms* (*adj*) central, vital.
- πepio 1. period; synonyms (n) age, dot, epoch, era, point, duration, generation, day, conclusion, cycle, interval, length, menstruation, stage, time, 2. cycle; synonyms (n) bicycle, circle, round, ring, sequence, circuit, period, turn, bout, beat, run, orbit, (v) bike, motorcycle, wheel, 3. date; synonyms (n) appointment, assignation, engagement, meeting, year, boyfriend, (v) escort, determine, register, accompany, court, see, 4. day; synonyms (n) light, daylight, daytime, crisis; antonyms (n) nighttime, night.
- періодичний 1. periodic; synonyms (adj) intermittent, regular, periodical, recurrent, frequent, alternate, recurring, routine, spasmodic, alternating, daily, fitful, infrequent, irregular, odd, 2. recurrent; synonyms (adj) periodic, repeated, continual, perennial, persistent, serial, habitual; antonym (adj) occasional, 3. terminal; synonyms (adj) final, last, definitive, endmost, fatal, concluding, incurable, (n) depot, end, extremity, terminus, boundary, station, destination.
- **πepo** pen; *synonyms* (n) corral, cage, ballpoint, enclosure, fold, jail, coop, playpen, (ν) enclose, confine, compose, impound, indite, write, inclose.
- **перон** platform; *synonyms* (*n*) dais, floor, rostrum, stage, stand, plan, pulpit, ambo, arena, dock, base, pedestal, platforms, amphitheater, (*v*) program.
- **перпендикулярний** vertical; *synonyms* (*adj*) upright, perpendicular, straight, erect, sheer, standing, plumb, unbowed; *antonyms* (*adj*) horizontal, prone.

- ΠΕΡCOHA person; synonyms (n) fellow, human, individual, man, being, body, character, creature, mortal, soul, life, homo, form, organism, (ν) party; antonym (n) automaton
- персонаж 1. character; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, nature, note, part, quality, role, type, brand, constitution, description, disposition, eccentric, spirit, tone, standing, **2**. person; *synonyms* (*n*) fellow, human, individual, man, being, body, character, creature, mortal, soul, life, homo, form, organism, (*v*) party; *antonym* (*n*) automaton.
- **персонал 1.** personnel; *synonyms* (n) employees, staff, workers, workforce, force, troops, effect, faculty, forcefulness, organization, people, body, corps, department, group, **2.** staff; *synonyms* (n) cane, club, post, personnel, rod, mace, baton, brace, stave, court, scepter, board, (v) crutch, prop, stick.
- **персональний** personal; *synonyms* (*adj*) individual, own, particular, human, intimate, peculiar, private, direct, proper, subjective, physical, confidential, especial, original, privy; *antonyms* (*adj*) public, general.
- перспектива 1. prospect; synonyms (n) expectancy, outlook, view, anticipation, aspect, hope, lookout, perspective, possibility, chance, expectation, future, likelihood, panorama, picture; antonym (n) past, 2. perspective; synonyms (n) attitude, angle, prospect, horizon, opinion, position, standpoint, viewpoint, vision, slant, stance, vista, stand, 3. outlook; synonyms (n) look, scene, mentality, spectacle, feeling, forecast, theory, perception, sight, belief, nature, side, (v) landscape, outstare, face, 4. promise (обіцянка, обіцяти); synonyms (n) engagement, assurance, bargain, engage, plight, word, betrothal, (v) pledge, covenant, guarantee, contract, vow, augur, assure, undertake
- ПЕРСТ digital; synonyms (adj) numeric, (n) computer. перстень ring (кільце); synonyms (n) encircle, band, gang, jingle, loop, rim, circuit, annulus, (v) circle, call, peal, echo, resound, reverberate, gird.
- перший 1. first; synonyms (adv) foremost, before, rather, early, (adj) best, beginning, chief, primitive, former, forward, head, initial, leading, maiden, (n) commencement; antonyms (adj) last, final, (n) end, 2. premier; synonyms (adj) first, arch, main, principal, (n) chancellor, minister, (v) premiere, 3. prime; synonyms (adj) essential, fundamental, paramount, primary, excellent, exquisite, overriding, premier, grand, capital, (n) cardinal, flower, bloom, blossom, (v) ground; antonym (adj) minor.
- **IIEPIIIICTb** championship; *synonyms* (*n*) backing, patronage, support, title.
- **ПЕРШОДЖЕРЕЛО** original; *synonyms* (*adj*) first, authentic, native, new, primary, primitive, indigenous, aboriginal, creative, early, fresh, imaginative, inventive, (*n*) archetype, model; *antonyms* (*adj*) commonplace, banal, copied, corny, derivative, hackneyed, well-worn, conventional, resulting, unimaginative, (*n*) copy, counterfeit, fake, imitation, replica.
- **першокласний** exclusive; *synonyms* (*adj*) individual, particular, private, single, sole, special, choice, peculiar, select, undivided, chic, elite, personal, especial, (*n*) scoop; *antonyms* (*adj*) inclusive, common.

- **ПЕРШОПРИЧИНА** principle; *synonyms* (n) origin, fundamental, method, rule, cause, doctrine, ground, basis, dogma, element, essence, law, precept, reason, tenet.
- **πec** dog (cοδακa); *synonyms* (n) cur, andiron, blackguard, click, detent, cad, cock, (v) chase, hound, beset, hunt, tail, track, trail, course.
- **ΠΕCTHTH 1**. pet; *synonyms* (*adj*) favourite, favored, (*n*) favorite, darling, love, beloved, ducky, (*ν*) caress, dear, dandle, fondle, baby, pamper, cherish, indulge, **2**. nurse; *synonyms* (*n*) nurture, doctor, amah, care, (*ν*) nourish, attend, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- **петиція** petition; *synonyms* (*n*) appeal, application, entreaty, invocation, asking, (*v*) demand, ask, request, desire, beg, claim, crave, apply, entreat, invite.
- **ПЕТЛЯ** loop; *synonyms* (n) coil, ring, bight, circuit, eyelet, eye, kink, noose, round, (v) curve, bend, circle, curl, entwine, knot.
- **ПЕЧАЛЬНИЙ** sad; *synonyms* (*adj*) dreary, dismal, distressing, gloomy, miserable, mournful, pitiable, pitiful, bad, bleak, dejected, deplorable, depressed, depressing, disconsolate; *antonyms* (*adj*) happy, cheerful, joyful, brave, cheery, composed.
- **печатка 1**. seal; *synonyms* (*n*) mark, stamp, cachet, hallmark, imprint, impression, signet, (*v*) plug, bar, close, shut, stop, clinch, lock, (*adj*) conclude; *antonyms* (*v*) open, unseal, **2**. stamp; *synonyms* (*n*) seal, brand, emblem, die, earmark, form, (*v*) print, cast, impress, trample, punch, characterize, shape, note, emboss.
- печать seal; *synonyms* (n) mark, stamp, cachet, hallmark, imprint, impression, signet, (v) plug, bar, close, shut, stop, clinch, lock, (adj) conclude; antonyms (v) open, unseal
- **печера** cave; *synonyms* (*n*) cavern, hole, lair, cove, den, grotto, hollow, cell, (*v*) undermine.
- печінка liver; synonyms (n) denizen, resident.
- n'cca play; synonyms (v) act, pastime, enact, exercise, perform, joke, execute, fiddle, flirt, (n) frolic, game, sport, bet, diversion, gambol; antonym (v) work.
- пиво 1. beer; *synonyms* (n) cocktail, suds, bock, head, hops, lather, nip, oil, slops, snifter, soapsuds, (v) wine, stingo, liqueur, spirits, 2. ale; *synonyms* (n) beer, eale.
- **ΠΙΙ.** 1. dust; *synonyms* (n) powder, dirt, grit, relics, remains, rhino, soil, blunt, debris, (v) clean, sprinkle, spray, wipe, spread, scatter, **2**. powder; *synonyms* (n) dust, gunpowder, explosive, (v) grind, crush, pound, pulverise, pulverize, bespangle.
- ПИЛА saw; *synonyms* (v) cut, (n) adage, byword, proverb, dictum, maxim, saying, aphorism, axiom, motto.
- ПИЛКА saw; synonyms (v) cut, (n) adage, byword, proverb, dictum, maxim, saying, aphorism, axiom, motto.
- **ΠΗΛΟCOC** Vacuum; *synonyms* (n) emptiness, void, vacancy, vacuity, gap, nothingness, blank, inanity, chasm, (ν) clean.
- **ΠΗ.ΛΟΥΚΑ** file; *synonyms* (n) archive, document, list, procession, rank, record, roll, series, string, (ν) order, rasp, register, scrape, abrade, arrange.

- ПИЛЬНИЙ 1. dusty; synonyms (adj) powdery, dirty, sandy, sooty, dry, mealy, branny, pulverulent, unclean, 2. alert; synonyms (adj) active, agile, quick, aware, intelligent, lively, vigilant, clever, alive, animated, attentive, bright, (v) awake, (n) alarm, alarum; antonyms (adj) drowsy, inattentive, absentminded, dazed, sleepy, tired, asleep, slow, unalert, unconscious, 3. staring; synonyms (adj) glaring, agaze, (adv) staringly.
- пильність watch; *synonyms* (v) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (n) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (adi) vigilance.
- пильнувати watch; *synonyms* (*v*) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (*n*) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (*adj*) vigilance.
- ΠΙΛΊΠΤΙ 1. file; *synonyms* (n) archive, document, list, procession, rank, record, roll, series, string, (v) order, rasp, register, scrape, abrade, arrange, **2**. saw; *synonyms* (v) cut, (n) adage, byword, proverb, dictum, maxim, saying, aphorism, axiom, motto.
- **πυρί** pie; *synonyms* (*n*) pi, pastry, puff, desert, dividend, picnic, pushover, snap, candy, tartlet, (*v*) volauvent, (*adj*) feasible.
- **ΠΗΣΕΙΤΙ** 1. Write; *synonyms* (*v*) compose, indite, pen, correspond, compile, draw, publish, record, spell, outline, type, construct, create, frame, (*n*) copy, **2**. pen; *synonyms* (*n*) corral, cage, ballpoint, enclosure, fold, jail, coop, playpen, prison, (*v*) enclose, confine, impound, write, inclose, style.
- письменник 1. writer; synonyms (n) author, journalist, poet, penman, commentator, dramatist, playwright, correspondent, reporter, 2. author (автор); synonyms (n) writer, architect, creator, founder, inventor, originator, parent, producer, father, generator, maker, source, (v) compose, create, write, 3. pen; synonyms (n) corral, cage, ballpoint, enclosure, fold, jail, coop, playpen, prison, (v) enclose, confine, impound, indite, inclose, style.
- **письмо** Writing; *synonyms* (*n*) script, composition, lettering, print, document, autograph, paper, authorship, book, inscription, record, journal, text, style, words.
- **письмовий** written; *synonyms* (*adj*) scripted, registered, clerical, conscript, enrolled, hard-and-fast, literal, (*n*) examination; *antonym* (*adj*) spoken.
- **ПИТАННЯ 1.** question; *synonyms* (*n*) inquiry, challenge, demand, matter, problem, (*v*) doubt, query, distrust, inquire, interrogate, investigate, contest, dispute, examine, enquire; *antonyms* (*n*) certainty, (*v*) answer, **2**. item; *synonyms* (*n*) piece, detail, article, entry, object, point, subject, thing, affair, event, clause, component, entity, fact, (*adv*) also.
- питати ask; *synonyms* (v) inquire, request, appeal, beg, demand, interrogate, question, take, beseech, call, charge, claim, consult, crave, invite; *antonym* (v) answer.
- **ΠΗΤΗ** drink; *synonyms* (n) beverage, alcohol, brew, potion, swallow, crapulence, intoxicant, nip, (ν) draught, booze, carouse, bib, absorb, down, gulp.

- **TIATTA** drinking; *synonyms* (n) drink, consumption, ingestion, intake, drunkenness, boozing, crapulence, drinkable, booze, alcohol, beverage, alcoholism, carouse, deglutition, (*adj*) drunk.
- **ПИХАТИЙ** arrogant; *synonyms* (*adj*) haughty, imperious, presumptuous, proud, dogmatic, boastful, conceited, condescending, disdainful, domineering, egotistical, insolent, overbearing, supercilious, vain; *antonyms* (*adj*) modest, self-effacing, (*syn*) humble.
- **пишний** magnificent; *synonyms* (*adj*) fine, imposing, brilliant, excellent, grand, splendid, gorgeous, illustrious, grandiose, elegant, glorious, superb, beautiful, divine, exquisite.
- пишність state (держава); synonyms (n) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, place, (v) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, (adj) national; antonyms (v) deny, (adj) private.
- **ПИШНОМОВНИЙ** heroic; *synonyms* (*adj*) bold, brave, courageous, fearless, chivalrous, dauntless, gallant, grand, intrepid, valiant, daring, epic, heroical, imposing, impressive; *antonym* (*adj*) cowardly.
- IIIAHIHO 1. piano; synonyms (n) pianoforte, pianissimo, (adj) soft, gentle, cushy, delicate, easy, faint, indulgent, lax, lenient, nonalcoholic, (adv) gently, lightly, softly; antonym (adv) forte, 2. upright; synonyms (adj) perpendicular, straight, erect, vertical, fair, good, just, righteous, honest, honorable, plumb, right, true, virtuous, pure; antonyms (adv) horizontally, (adj) disreputable, prone, upturned, degenerate, hanging, unwholesome.
- південний 1. southern; *synonyms* (*adj*) south, southerly, meridional, (*n*) austral, austrine, 2. south (південь); *synonyms* (*n*) southland, confederacy, s, confederation, conspiracy, federation, mho, sec, second, siemens, sulfur, sulphur, (*adj*) left, polar.
- південь 1. south; synonyms (n) southland, confederacy, s, confederation, conspiracy, federation, mho, sec, second, siemens, sulfur, sulphur, (adj) left, polar, 2. noon; synonyms (n) midday, noonday, noontide, crest, lunchtime, (adj) meridian, culmination, meridional, 3. midday; synonym (n) noon.
- півкуля hemisphere; *synonyms* (n) area, realm, region, sphere, ground, orb, quarter, field, half, soil.
- **північ 1**. north; *synonyms* (*n*) northland, n, union, brotherhood, conglutination, conjugation, coupling, join, jointure, marriage, (*adv*) northerly, northward, northwards, (*adj*) northbound, northmost; *antonym* (*adj*) south, **2**. midnight; *synonyms* (*n*) night, dark, **3**. noon; *synonyms* (*n*) midday, noonday, noontide, crest, lunchtime, (*adj*) meridian, culmination, meridional.
- Північний 1. northern; synonyms (adj) north, northerly, boreal, arctic, hyperborean, frigid, septentrional, 2. north; synonyms (n) northland, n, union, brotherhood, conglutination, conjugation, coupling, join, jointure, marriage, mating, (adv) northward, northwards, (adj) northbound, northmost; antonym (adj) south.
- πiд 1. under; synonyms (adv) below, beneath, underneath, downstairs, infra, (adj) lower, down, nether, bottom, inferior, low, subject, subordinate, lowest; antonym (prep) over, 2. underneath; synonym (prep) under, 3. below; synonym (adj) after; antonym (prep) above.

- **підбадьорювання** encouragement; *synonyms* (n) comfort, aid, backing, incentive, promotion, support, cheer, consolation, advocacy, assistance, boost, fosterage, incitement, inducement, inspiration; *antonyms* (n) discouragement, neglect.
- ПІДБАДЬОРЮВАТИ encourage; synonyms (v) cheer, abet, advance, aid, back, boost, comfort, foster, further, promote, urge, advocate, cherish, advise, animate; antonyms (v) discourage, dishearten, prevent, deter, hurt, obstruct, stop.
- підбор heel; *synonyms* (n) blackguard, counter, dog, cad, scoundrel, shoe, sole, villain, bounder, (v) list, lean.
- підборіддя chin; synonyms (n) talk, jaw, jawbone, rap, mentum, button, cheek, chops, mouth, point, (v) speak, confer, utter.
- **IIIДБУРЮВАННЯ** promotion; *synonyms* (n) furtherance, advance, advancement, advertising, boost, encouragement, hype, preferment, progress, advertisement, cultivation, exaltation, forwarding, publicity, support; *antonyms* (n) demotion, neglect.
- III./IGYPIOBATII encourage; synonyms (v) cheer, abet, advance, aid, back, boost, comfort, foster, further, promote, urge, advocate, cherish, advise, animate; antonyms (v) discourage, dishearten, prevent, deter, hurt, obstruct, stop.
- підвал basement; *synonyms* (n) cellar, base, bottom, vault, kitchen, offices, pantry, scullery, footing, catacomb, floor, sepulcher, stomach, tomb.
- ПІДВАЛИНА 1. base; synonyms (n) foundation, basis, (adj) bottom, abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, (v) ground, found; antonyms (n) summit, top, (adj) noble, 2. basement; synonyms (n) cellar, base, vault, kitchen, offices, pantry, scullery, footing, catacomb, floor, sepulcher, stomach, tomb.
- ПІДВИЩЕННЯ 1. boost; synonyms (n) jump, push, assist, (v) advance, advertise, amplify, augment, hike, increase, promote, raise, thrust, bolster, elevate, encourage; antonyms (n) disappointment, (v) decrease, knock, drop, undermine, 2. advance; synonyms (n) progress, improvement, growth, (v) further, proceed, approach, rise, boost, contribute, cultivate, develop, forward, gain, grow, (phr) accelerate; antonyms (n) deterioration, (v) retreat, recede, delay, demote, regress, 3. increase; synonyms (n) addition, augmentation, boom, expansion, extension, accretion, (v) accrue, extend, aggrandize, expand, enhance, enlarge, deepen, accumulate, benefit; antonyms (n) reduction, contraction, decline, (v) reduce, diminish, deteriorate, 4. rise; synonyms (n) elevation, lift, ascent, swell, raising, advancement, incline, slope, (v) climb, mount, ascend, heave, arise, originate, rear; antonyms (v) fall, sink, descend, plummet, retire, 5. rising; synonyms (adj) climbing, uphill, emergent, emerging, (n) ascending, mutiny, rebellion, revolt, ascension, insurrection, outbreak, upheaval, uprising, (adv) increasing, growing; antonyms (adj) plummeting, decreasing, plunging.
- підвищувати 1. boost; *synonyms* (*n*) jump, push, assist, (*v*) advance, advertise, amplify, augment, hike, increase, promote, raise, thrust, bolster, elevate, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) disappointment, (*v*) decrease, knock, drop,

- undermine, 2. increase; synonyms (n) gain, addition, augmentation, boom, expansion, extension, growth, progress, (v) accrue, extend, grow, aggrandize, expand, enhance, enlarge; antonyms (n) reduction, contraction, decline, (v) reduce, diminish, deteriorate, 3. enhance; synonyms (v) beautify, better, deepen, intensify, embellish, adorn, aggravate, amend, boost, compound, develop, improve, ornament, swell, appreciate; antonyms (v) damage, taint, 4. lift; synonyms (n) elevator, heave, support, climb, (v) hoist, rise, erect, filch, airlift, pilfer, pinch, rear, steal, swipe, heighten, 5. prefer; synonyms (v) choose, pick, elect, favor, like, opt, favour, select, want, dignify, fancy, desire, exalt, love, relish, 6. raise; synonyms (v) lift, build, foster, prefer, cultivate, excite, levy, nurture, pitch, found, breed, collect, construct, create, (n) mount; antonym (v) lower.
- **ПІДВІСНИЙ** suspended; *synonyms* (*adj*) hanging, pendent, dormant, pendulous, abeyant, dangling, inactive, pendant.
- **підвішений** suspended; *synonyms* (*adj*) hanging, pendent, dormant, pendulous, abeyant, dangling, inactive, pendant.
- III. JBIIII. BAHHAI hanging; synonyms (n) dangling, execution, suspension, curtain, (adj) pendant, pendent, suspended, pending, pendulous; antonym (adj) upright.
- **ПІДВЛАДНИЙ** subject; *synonyms* (n) matter, citizen, affair, dependent, inferior, issue, motif, question, point, area, content, discipline, field, (adj) liable, exposed; antonym (adj) liberated.
- **підводний** submarine; *synonyms* (*n*) pigboat, sub, bomber, champion, chock, crampfish, cuneus, fighter, grinder, (*adj*) subaqueous, undersea, underwater, subterranean, subterrene, deep.
- підготовка 1. preparation; synonyms (n) arrangement, concoction, provision, readiness, training, practice, formulation, homework, planning, prep, discipline, drill, instruction, background, prelude, 2. training; synonyms (n) education, breeding, preparation, teaching, exercise, nurture, schooling, experience, workout, culture, coaching, grooming, 3. background; synonyms (n) backdrop, groundwork, setting, basis, context, environment, scene, backcloth, panorama, atmosphere, ground, information, record, scenery, situation.
- **ПІДГОТОВЛЕНИЙ** prepared; synonyms (adj) disposed, fit, willing, fitted, fain, finished, ready, ripe, competent, inclined, primed, completed, efficient, mature, apt; antonyms (adj) unprepared, spontaneous.
- **ПІДГОТОВЛЯТИ 1.** arrange; *synonyms* (v) adjust, appoint, dress, order, set, settle, pack, adapt, agree, classify, compose, decorate, do, engineer, fix; *antonyms* (v) disturb, disarrange, **2.** prepare; *synonyms* (v) arrange, form, plan, coach, devise, lay, make, concoct, cook, equip, fit, groom, organize, qualify, discipline.
- підготувати prepare; *synonyms* (v) arrange, fix, form, plan, dress, coach, devise, lay, make, set, adjust, concoct, cook, equip, fit.
- піддавати 1. commit; *synonyms* (*v*) commend, assign, charge, consign, apply, confide, dedicate, entrust, submit, deliver, devote, give, intrust, leave, send, 2. subject; *synonyms* (*n*) matter, citizen, affair, dependent,

- inferior, issue, motif, question, point, area, content, discipline, field, (adj) liable, exposed; antonym (adj) liberated, 3. submit; synonyms (v) comply, obey, acquiesce, present, resign, accede, bend, convey, defer, exhibit, offer, proffer, propose, relegate, render; antonyms (v) withdraw, resist.
- ПІДДАВАТИСЯ yield; synonyms (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; antonyms (v) resist, persevere.
- **ПІДДАНИЙ** subject; *synonyms* (n) matter, citizen, affair, dependent, inferior, issue, motif, question, point, area, content, discipline, field, (adj) liable, exposed; antonym (adj) liberated.
- **ШДДАТЛИВІСТЬ** compliance; *synonyms* (*n*) agreement, approval, observance, accordance, acquiescence, complaisance, consent, obedience, accord, assent, compliancy, deference, submission, flexibility, yielding; *antonyms* (*n*) disobedience, stubbornness, nonconformity.
- **ШДДОСЛІДНИЙ** experimental; *synonyms* (*adj*) empirical, tentative, scientific, observational, pilot, test, trial
- піджак 1. coat; *synonyms* (n) cover, coating, crust, film, fur, jacket, layer, bark, case, casing, (v) cloak, sheath, blanket, plaster, glaze, 2. jacket; *synonyms* (n) covering, envelope, coat, skin, shield, wrap, (v) clothe.
- **ПІДЗВІТНИЙ** accountable; *synonyms* (*adj*) amenable, answerable, responsible, (*v*) liable.
- підземний underground; *synonyms* (*adj*) clandestine, secret, covert, hidden, undercover, surreptitious, furtive, stealthy, belowground, guerilla, (*n*) metro, subway, tube, (*v*) buried, underhand.
- ПІДІЙМАННЯ ascent; synonyms (n) acclivity, ascension, rise, climb, ascending, elevation, hill, incline, advance, grade, jump, slant, gradient, hike, inclination; antonyms (n) descent, fall.
- підійматися mount; synonyms (v) ascend, rise, climb, board, arise, advance, jump, bestride, grow, increase, ride, scale, (n) hill, frame, mountain; antonyms (v) descend. drop. (n) valley.
- **ПІДІРВАНИЙ** broken; *synonyms* (v) broke, (*adj*) tame, torn, busted, imperfect, intermittent, rough, rugged, ruined, uneven, disjointed, incomplete, confused, cracked, crushed; *antonyms* (*adj*) constant, unbroken, intact, whole, wild.
- HIA'Î3A 1. approach; synonyms (n) access, entry, advent, arrival, avenue, coming, entrance, means, method, adit, (v) advance, accost, address, near, approximate; antonym (v) leave, 2. porch; synonyms (n) lobby, hall, veranda, vestibule, balcony, door, portico, inlet, doorway, patio, portal, chops, conservatory, lips, mouth
- **ШДЙОМ 1.** ascent; *synonyms* (n) acclivity, ascension, rise, climb, ascending, elevation, hill, incline, advance, grade, jump, slant, gradient, hike, inclination; *antonyms* (n) descent, fall, **2.** lift; *synonyms* (n) elevator, boost, heave, support, (v) hoist, raise, elevate, erect, filch, airlift, pilfer, pinch, rear, steal, swipe, **3.** raise; *synonyms* (v) lift, increase, build, enhance, foster, grow,

- promote, prefer, augment, cultivate, exalt, excite, heighten, levy, nurture; *antonym* (v) lower.
- IIIДКЛАДКА 1. back; synonyms (adv) before, backward, (n) rear, (adj) assist, (v) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; antonyms (n) face, (v) front, oppose, advance, 2. backing; synonyms (n) patronage, approval, assistance, encouragement, endorsement, accompaniment, championship, help, promotion, sanction, sponsorship, sustenance, funding, funds, investment.
- **підкова** shoe; *synonyms* (*n*) boot, horseshoe, skid, clog, splint, spoke, sprit, base, stilts, stirrup, galoshes.
- III. JKOHYBATU 1. undermine; synonyms (v) subvert, weaken, mine, cave, damage, sabotage, break, impair, burrow, counteract, countermine, (n) overthrow, (adj) sap, dig, delve; antonyms (v) strengthen, bolster, 2. mine; synonyms (n) excavation, pit, fund, vein, shaft, well, bomb, (v) excavate, exploit, bore, tunnel, undermine, devour, (adj) gouge, dent.
- **підкорення** 1. conquest; *synonyms* (*n*) victory, conquering, defeat, triumph, achievement, reduction, coup, rout, mastery, occupation, overthrow, subjection, subjugation, success, win; *antonym* (*n*) surrender, 2. submission; *synonyms* (*n*) compliance, obedience, acquiescence, bid, deference, offer, entry, presentation, capitulation, conformity, meekness, consent, suggestion, application, (*adj*) resignation.
- підкоряти subject; synonyms (n) matter, citizen, affair, dependent, inferior, issue, motif, question, point, area, content, discipline, field, (adj) liable, exposed; antonym (adj) liberated.
- підкорятися 1. submit; synonyms (v) comply, obey, acquiesce, present, resign, accede, bend, convey, defer, deliver, exhibit, give, offer, proffer, propose; antonyms (v) withdraw, resist, 2. comply; synonyms (v) agree, assent, consent, accommodate, conform, follow, accept, accord, allow, observe, perform, yield, 3. bow; synonyms (n) arc, curve, obeisance, turn, curvature, (v) arch, stoop, duck, buckle, crouch, incline, kowtow, crook, kneel, nod, 4. conform; synonyms (v) adapt, adjust, fit, assimilate, frame, square, answer, acclimate, fulfill, correspond, reconcile, suit, integrate; antonyms (v) deviate, differ, 5. obey; synonyms (v) mind, heed, listen, keep, hear, serve, mark, respect, submit; antonyms (v) disobey, break, defy.
- **ШДКРЕСЛЕНИЙ** pointed; **synonyms** (adj) penetrating, keen, poignant, acute, piquant, cutting, marked, pithy, biting, acuminate, barbed, prickly, pungent, sharp, short; **antonym** (adj) rounded.
- **ПІДКРЕСЛЮВАТИ** stress; *synonyms* (*n*) accent, emphasis, pressure, tension, force, importance, pinch, effort, (*v*) strain, emphasize, accentuate, emphasise, punctuate, underline, trouble.
- підлеглий 1. inferior; synonyms (adj) bad, secondary, subordinate, humble, poor, cheap, junior, lesser, petty, base, feeble, coarse, common, vulgar, (prep) below; antonyms (adj) better, choice, excellent, first-rate, high-class, premium, (n) superior, superscript, 2. dependent; synonyms (adj) subject, contingent, addicted, tributary, relative, helpless, (n) dependant, charge, adjective,

- attendant, follower, servant, slave, vassal, client; **antonyms** (adj) independent, self-governing, self-sufficient, **3**. secondary; **synonyms** (adj) inferior, lower, minor, ancillary, derivative, incidental, auxiliary, indirect, second, less, deficient, additional, (n) proxy, deputy, delegate; **antonyms** (adj) basic, main, central, chief, direct, fundamental, major, primary, **4**. subject; **synonyms** (n) matter, citizen, affair, dependent, issue, motif, question, point, area, content, discipline, field, national, (adj) liable, exposed; **antonym** (adj) liberated.
- ПІДЛИЙ base; synonyms (n) foundation, basis, (adj) bottom, abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, (v) ground, found; antonyms (n) summit, top, (adj) noble.
- підлога floor; *synonyms* (n) bed, level, base, layer, bottom, flooring, ground, platform, soil, (v) deck, dump, fell, prostrate, stun, baffle; *antonym* (n) top.
- **ПІДЛОКІТНИК** arm; *synonyms* (*n*) branch, wing, bay, department, division, limb, might, offshoot, power, section, sleeve, (*v*) equip, furnish, outfit, provide; *antonym* (*v*) disarm.
- **підметка** sole (Єдиний); *synonyms* (*adj*) lone, single, singular, one, alone, exclusive, individual, only, solitary, particular, separate, (*n*) bottom, base, flounder, (*v*) resole.
- **підмивати** undermine; *synonyms* (*v*) subvert, weaken, mine, cave, damage, sabotage, break, impair, burrow, counteract, countermine, (*n*) overthrow, (*adj*) sap, dig, delve; *antonyms* (*v*) strengthen, bolster.
- **ПІДНЕСЕННЯ 1.** wave; *synonyms* (*n*) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (*v*) brandish, flap, flutter, curl, flourish, swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon, **2**. presentation; *synonyms* (*n*) donation, exhibition, demonstration, display, introduction, performance, offer, appearance, exposition, gift, exposure, induction, intro, overture, presentment, **3**. lift; *synonyms* (*n*) elevator, boost, heave, (*v*) hoist, raise, rise, elevate, erect, filch, hike, advance, airlift, pilfer, pinch, rear.
- **ПІДНІЖЖЯ** skirt; *synonyms* (n) border, edge, brim, flap, kilt, apron, margin, (v) fringe, circumvent, evade, hem, elude, sidestep, verge, dodge.
- піднімати 1. lift; synonyms (n) elevator, boost, heave, (v) hoist, raise, rise, elevate, erect, filch, hike, advance, airlift, pilfer, pinch, rear, 2. raise; synonyms (v) lift, increase, build, enhance, foster, grow, promote, prefer, augment, cultivate, exalt, excite, heighten, levy, nurture; antonym (v) lower, 3. rear; synonyms (adj) back, after, (n) posterior, tail, backside, behind, bottom, buttocks, poop, can, (v) breed, educate, nurse, edify, construct; antonyms (adj) fore, (n) front.
- III. ATHCH 1. climb; synonyms (ν) ascend, arise, clamber, escalate, increase, scale, scramble, (n) rise, mount, ascent, acclivity, advance, ascending, jump, ascension; antonyms (ν) descend, drop, 2. rise; synonyms (n) elevation, lift, progress, raise, swell, raising, advancement, improvement, incline, slope, (ν) climb, heave, grow, originate, rear; antonyms (n) reduction, (ν) fall, decrease, sink, plummet, retire, 3. surge; synonyms (n) wave, burst, ripple, spurt, spate, upsurge, (ν) billow, flood, rush, stream, flow, gush, jet, soar, leap, 4. mount; synonyms (ν) board, bestride, ride,

- erect, fix, heighten, install, launch, wax, fit, multiply, (n) hill, frame, mountain, peak; *antonym* (n) valley.
- **піднос 1**. tray; *synonyms* (*n*) plate, dish, basket, bassinet, case, corbeille, cradle, crate, creel, dorser, dosser, hamper, hopper, jardiniere, lapboard, **2**. waiter; *synonyms* (*n*) server, attendant, salver, servant, tray, bridegroom, disposition, groom, habit, host, kidney, kind, sort, flunky, **3**. server; *synonyms* (*n*) waiter, emcee, horde, innkeeper, legion.
- **πίχΗος ΗΤΗ 1**. present; *synonyms* (*adj*) grant, confer, (*n*) gift, donation, (*v*) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; *antonyms* (*adj*) missing, (*n*) past, future, history, (*v*) withdraw, (*adv*) absent, **2**. lift; *synonyms* (*n*) elevator, boost, heave, (*v*) hoist, raise, rise, elevate, erect, filch, hike, advance, airlift, pilfer, pinch, rear.
- **ΠΙΖΗΟΙΙΙΕΗΗЯ 1.** offering; *synonyms* (*v*) gift, grant, favor, benefaction, boon, (*n*) contribution, donation, oblation, offer, present, presentation, endowment, bestowal, gratuity, reward, **2.** tribute; *synonyms* (*n*) commendation, praise, tax, honor, testimonial, duty, homage, eulogy, respect, compliment, appreciation, approval, commemoration, (*v*) subsidy, allowance; *antonym* (*n*) criticism.
- підняти 1. raise; *synonyms* (*v*) boost, lift, erect, hoist, increase, build, elevate, enhance, foster, grow, promote, prefer, augment, cultivate, (*n*) advance; *antonym* (*v*) lower, 2. lift; *synonyms* (*n*) elevator, heave, support, climb, (*v*) raise, rise, filch, hike, airlift, pilfer, pinch, rear, steal, swipe, heighten.
- **ΠΙДΗЯΤΤЯ** lift; *synonyms* (n) elevator, boost, heave, (ν) hoist, raise, rise, elevate, erect, filch, hike, advance, airlift, pilfer, pinch, rear.
- πiдo3pa suspicion, synonyms (n) apprehension, distrust, mistrust, inkling, fear, hunch, misgiving, qualm, scruple, surmise, supposition, hesitation, hint, intuition, (v) doubt; antonyms (n) trust, certainty.
- підозрілий 1. doubtful; synonyms (adj) ambiguous, debatable, dubious, disputable, distrustful, queer, questionable, suspicious, tentative, diffident, hesitant, indistinct, skeptical, uncertain, undecided; antonyms (adi) certain, trusting, convinced, reliable, confident. persuaded, provable, sure, 2. suspect; synonyms (v) doubt, distrust, mistrust, suppose, conjecture, guess, surmise, believe, disbelieve, divine, assume, fear, consider, (adj) fishy, shady; antonyms (v) trust, (adj) trustworthy, 3. suspicious; synonyms (adj) suspect, doubtful, incredulous, funny, jealous, mistrustful, shy, leery, apprehensive, wary, suspicion, doubting, mysterious, questioning, shifty; antonyms (adj) aboveboard, aggressive, gullible, 4. warv; synonyms (adj) prudent, cautious, careful, circumspect, guarded, vigilant, alert, attentive, chary, discreet, thoughtful, wakeful, cagey, heedful, watchful; antonyms (adj) unwary, careless, reckless, 5. dubious; synonyms (adj) vague, precarious, unlikely, unreliable, unsure, dubitable, equivocal, indefinite, problematic, shaky, unclear, unsettled, untrustworthy, crooked, implausible; antonyms (adj) indisputable, definite.
- підозрювати suspect; *synonyms* (v) doubt, distrust, mistrust, suppose, conjecture, guess, surmise, believe,

- disbelieve, divine, (*adj*) fishy, questionable, shady, suspicious, dubious; *antonyms* (*v*) trust, (*adj*) trustworthy.
- **IIIДОПІЧНИЙ** responsibility; *synonyms* (n) accountability, duty, care, charge, affair, fault, job, liability, obligation, onus, reliability, load, commitment, dependability, burden.
- підошва sole (єдиний); synonyms (adj) lone, single, singular, one, alone, exclusive, individual, only, solitary, particular, separate, (n) bottom, base, flounder, (v) resole.
- ΠΙ΄ΔΠΑJΙΟΒΑΗΗЯ firing; *synonyms* (*v*) burst, (*adj*) combustible, (*n*) discharge, dismissal, fire, combustion, explosion, dismission, fuel, ignition, kindling, lighting, release, sack, sacking.
- підпирати 1. sustain; *synonyms* (*v*) support, bear, carry, keep, continue, hold, maintain, preserve, endure, suffer, abide, have, prop, relieve, stand, 2. shore; *synonyms* (*n*) bank, coast, beach, edge, land, buttress, seashore, seaside, stay, brace, margin, border, riverside, coastline, shoreline; *antonym* (*n*) interior.
- підпис signature; synonyms (n) autograph, mark, endorsement, earmark, ratification, stamp, acceptance, completion, imprint, indorsement, scale, seal, serif, shank, (v) sign.
- **ПІДПИСАННЯ 1.** signature; *synonyms* (*n*) autograph, mark, endorsement, earmark, ratification, stamp, acceptance, completion, imprint, indorsement, scale, seal, serif, shank, (*v*) sign, **2.** subscription; *synonyms* (*n*) contribution, donation, offering, gift, pledge, enrollment, obedience, submission, (*v*) allowance, subsidy, subvention.
- **ПІДПИСАТИ** sign; synonyms (n) signal, indication, mark, motion, portent, brand, emblem, imprint, manifestation, omen, poster, presage, wave, (v) gesture, indicate.
- підписувати sign; *synonyms* (n) signal, indication, mark, motion, portent, brand, emblem, imprint, manifestation, omen, poster, presage, wave, (y) gesture, indicate.
- ПІДПІЛЬНИЙ underground; synonyms (adj) clandestine, secret, covert, hidden, undercover, surreptitious, furtive, stealthy, belowground, guerilla, (n) metro, subway, tube, (v) buried, underhand.
- IIIДППРКА 1. shore; *synonyms* (n) bank, coast, prop, beach, edge, land, buttress, seashore, seaside, stay, brace, margin, border, riverside, (v) support; *antonym* (n) interior, 2. post; *synonyms* (n) place, function, office, position, pillar, stake, attitude, berth, column, job, (v) mail, locate, base, enter, lay.
- підпора upright; synonyms (adj) perpendicular, straight, erect, vertical, fair, good, just, righteous, honest, honorable, plumb, right, true, virtuous, pure; antonyms (adv) horizontally, (adj) disreputable, prone, upturned, degenerate, hanging, unwholesome.
- ПІДПРИ€МЕЦЬ 1. businessman; synonyms (n) entrepreneur, dealer, merchant, magnate, tycoon, executive, employer, manufacturer, vendor, broker, businessperson, capitalist, financier, seller, 2. boss; synonyms (n) chief, governor, head, overseer, superior, ruler, administrator, captain, director, foreman, leader, manager, (v) administer, govern, direct.

- **ПІДПРИЄМЛИВИЙ** pushing; *synonyms* (v) meddlesome, (*adj*) aggressive, enterprising, pushful, pushy, ambitious, forward, (n) push, promotion.
- **ПІДПРИЄМЛИВІСТЬ** enterprise; *synonyms* (n) business, company, concern, endeavor, activity, adventure, energy, courage, effort, endeavour, firm, initiative, spirit, venture, corporation.
- **ПІДПРИЄМНИЦТВО** enterprise; *synonyms* (n) business, company, concern, endeavor, activity, adventure, energy, courage, effort, endeavour, firm, initiative, spirit, venture, corporation.
- підприємство 1. enterprise; synonyms (n) business, company, concern, endeavor, activity, adventure, energy, courage, effort, endeavour, firm, initiative, spirit, venture, corporation, 2. undertaking; synonyms (n) enterprise, labor, promise, task, attempt, project, job, duty, guarantee, pledge, work, commitment, affair, assignment, engagement.
- ПІДРАХОВАНИЙ calculated; synonyms (v) advised, designed, (adj) deliberate, conscious, intended, intentional, premeditated, purposeful, studied, measured, planned, strategic; antonym (adj) accidental.
- підраховувати 1. calculate; synonyms (v) count, estimate, account, add, appraise, cipher, compute, deem, enumerate, forecast, gauge, guess, make, reckon, consider, 2. cast; synonyms (v) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (n) appearance, casting, mold, 3. reckon; synonyms (v) judge, hold, calculate, number, rate, tally, measure, assess, believe, esteem, expect, plan, regard, suppose, tell.
- підрахунок 1. count (рахувати); synonyms (n) number, calculation, computation, total, (v) calculate, compute, tally, account, cipher, consider, estimate, matter, reckon, weigh, add, 2. cast; synonyms (v) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (n) appearance, casting, mold, 3. calculation; synonyms (n) reckoning, analysis, arithmetic, deliberation, discretion, forecast, anticipation, projection, count, expectation, figuring, guess, (v) estimation, (adj) circumspection, prudence.
- ПІДРИВ disruption; *synonyms* (*n*) breakdown, break, dislocation, rupture, breach, disturbance, interruption, disintegration, collapse, gap, turmoil, commotion, disorganization, (*v*) split, (*adj*) diruption.
- підривати 1. blast; synonyms (n) bang, slam, burst, gust, (v) attack, blare, blight, bomb, boom, detonate, roar, smash, blow, (adj) discharge, explosion, 2. undermine; synonyms (v) subvert, weaken, mine, cave, damage, sabotage, break, impair, burrow, counteract, countermine, (n) overthrow, (adj) sap, dig, delve; antonyms (v) strengthen, bolster.
- Підрізати nick; synonyms (n) notch, mark, cut, chip, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (v) dent, steal, hack, indent.
- **ΠΙΑΡΟ3 ДΙ Π** unit; *synonyms* (n) troop, element, group, squad, aggregate, cell, team, detachment, member, ace, company, component, part, section, (*adj*) one.
- **ПІДРОЗДІЛЯТИ** section; *synonyms* (n) division, part, portion, compartment, percentage, piece, class, branch,

- chapter, clause, department, episode, partition, region, (v) segment.
- **підручник** manual; *synonyms* (n) handbook, guide, guidebook, brochure, primer, text, textbook, compendium, grammar, abecedary, codex, libretto; *antonyms* (adj) automatic, mechanized.
- **підрядчик** contractor; *synonyms* (n) builder, entrepreneur, party, undertaker, affirmer, asserter, avower, dealer, declarer, outworker, broker, freelancer, merchant, seller.
- **ΠΙΖΟΙJITTU** strengthen; *synonyms* (ν) consolidate, confirm, corroborate, brace, encourage, enhance, fortify, intensify, invigorate, bolster, buttress, harden, increase, stiffen, toughen; *antonyms* (ν) weaken, undermine.
- **підсилювати 1**. strengthen; *synonyms* (*v*) consolidate, confirm, corroborate, brace, encourage, enhance, fortify, intensify, invigorate, bolster, buttress, harden, increase, stiffen, toughen; *antonyms* (*v*) weaken, undermine, **2**. reinforce; *synonyms* (*v*) support, enforce, recruit, reenforce, strengthen, amplify, assist, augment, cover.
- III\_JCU\_JIOBATUCЯ strengthen; synonyms (v) consolidate, confirm, corroborate, brace, encourage, enhance, fortify, intensify, invigorate, bolster, buttress, harden, increase, stiffen, toughen; antonyms (v) weaken, undermine.
- підстава 1. reason; synonyms (n) mind, account, intellect, occasion, argument, object, purpose, rationality, understanding, basis, (v) cause, argue, debate, conclude, deduce, 2. warrant; synonyms (n) guarantee, authority, vouch, authorization, security, certificate, commission, (v) permit, license, assure, justify, sanction, ensure, authorize, empower, 3. basis; synonyms (n) base, foundation, gist, bed, beginning, footing, fundamental, root, cornerstone, derivation, ground, justification, nucleus, reason, motive, 4. ground; synonyms (n) land, floor, dirt, field, soil, country, area, background, region, (v) bottom, found, establish, fix, rest, build; antonym (n) ceiling, 5. cause; synonyms (n) case, action, campaign, excuse, lawsuit, (v) make, breed, do, induce, allow, arouse, beget, bring, engender, inspire; antonym (n) consequence, 6. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, regard, score, tale, description, explanation, history, narration, recital, story, tab, tally, (v) report, 7. base; synonyms (n) leg, stand, support, (adj) abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, infamous, ugly; antonyms (n) summit, top, (adj) noble.
- підставка rack; synonyms (n) manger, wrack, bracket, cage, stand, boot, ledge, (v) torture, excruciate, torment, afflict, agonize, pain, bedevil, crucify.
- Підстрибувати bob; *synonyms* (*n*) shilling, jump, (*v*) curtsy, dock, bow, toss, dip, bend, bounce, cut, jiggle, reel, tail, tap, trim.
- підсудний 1. accused; synonyms (n) panel, perpetrator, 2. defendant; synonyms (n) accused, litigant, party, plaintiff, prisoner, suspect, defender, (adj) defensive, 3. prisoner; synonyms (n) convict, captive, hostage, criminal, defendant.
- ПІДСУМОВУВАТИ sum; *synonyms* (n) total, quantity, entirety, mass, count, measure, join, (v)

- amount, aggregate, figure, number, add, resume, compute, (*adj*) all.
- підсумок 1. count (рахувати); synonyms (n) number, calculation, computation, total, (v) calculate, compute, tally, account, cipher, consider, estimate, matter, reckon, weigh, add, 2. amount; synonyms (n) quantity, aggregate, measure, sum, degree, extent, figure, price, volume, body, bulk, cost, magnitude, mass, (v) come, 3. total; synonyms (adj) complete, all, absolute, entire, gross, downright, general, full, integral, outright, overall, (n) whole, amount, entirety, (v) count; antonyms (adj) partial, incomplete, qualified.
- **підтвердження 1**. confirmation; *synonyms* (*n*) affirmation, approval, corroboration, ratification, sanction, testimony, demonstration, agreement, authentication, check, endorsement, evidence, proof, substantiation, verification; *antonym* (*n*) contradiction, **2**. endorsement; *synonyms* (*n*) approbation, confirmation, authorization, countenance, permission, authority, certificate, authorisation, backing, certification, consent, guarantee, imprimatur, indorsement, recommendation, **3**. acknowledgement; *synonyms* (*n*) acceptance, acknowledgment, recognition, acclaim, preferment, realisation, realization.
- підтверджувати 1. confirm; synonyms (v) affirm, approve, corroborate, establish, prove, validate, verify, clinch, assert, assure, authenticate, authorize, certify, demonstrate, justify; antonyms (v) disprove, contradict, 2. acknowledge; synonyms (v) accept, avow, confess, recognize, own, profess, admit, appreciate, concede, declare, notice, agree, answer, confirm, grant; antonyms (v) deny, ignore, overlook, reject, 3. justify; synonyms (v) excuse, explain, absolve, defend, exonerate, vindicate, deserve, apologize, claim, exculpate, palliate, rationalize, exempt, acquit, (n) warrant.
- ПІДТВЕРДИТИ confirm; synonyms (v) affirm, approve, corroborate, establish, prove, validate, verify, clinch, assert, assure, authenticate, authorize, certify, demonstrate, justify; antonyms (v) disprove, contradict.
- **ШДТРИМАННЯ** maintenance; *synonyms* (n) livelihood, alimony, care, keep, living, sustenance, charge, conservation, continuation, custody, preservation, service, support, sustainment, sustentation; *antonym* (n) end.
- підтримка 1. support; synonyms (n) help, stand, aid, keep, comfort, maintenance, patronage, (v) assist, prop, back, brace, encourage, maintain, bear, boost; antonyms (n) hindrance, (v) oppose, neglect, undermine, abandon, reject, weaken, 2. backing; synonyms (n) support, approval, assistance, encouragement, endorsement, accompaniment, championship, promotion, sanction, sponsorship, sustenance, funding, funds, investment.
- **підтримувати** 1. support; *synonyms* (n) help, stand, aid, keep, comfort, maintenance, patronage, (v) assist, prop, back, brace, encourage, maintain, bear, boost; *antonyms* (n) hindrance, (v) oppose, neglect, undermine, abandon, reject, weaken, 2. maintain; *synonyms* (v) continue, justify, affirm, allege, assert, aver, conserve, declare, defend, guard, hold, preserve, insist, support, sustain; *antonyms* (v) deny, change, 3. sustain; *synonyms* (v) carry, endure, suffer, abide, have, relieve,

- strengthen, bolster, corroborate, experience, nourish, nurture, receive, retain, substantiate, 4. back; synonyms (adv) before, backward, (n) rear, (adj) posterior, (v) advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, champion, finance, fund, gamble; antonyms (n) face, (v) front, advance, 5. bear (ведмідь); synonyms (v) accept, acquit, take, afford, allow, apply, assume, behave, brook, comport, conduct, convey, digest, produce, teem, **6**. encourage; synonyms (v) cheer, abet, foster, further, promote, urge, cherish, advise, animate, countenance, cultivate, embolden, hearten, incite, stimulate; antonyms (v) discourage, dishearten, prevent, deter, hurt, obstruct, stop, 7. second; synonyms (n) instant, moment, flash, jiffy, minute, sec, time, wink, bit, third, (v) forward, (adj) latter, secondary, inferior, (pron) additional; antonym (adj) first.
- **ПІДТРИМУЮЧИЙ** supporting; *synonyms* (*adj*) auxiliary, collateral, encouraging, secondary, (*n*) support, backing, (*prep*) behind.
- ПІДТЯЖКА supporter; synonyms (n) partisan, admirer, ally, backer, follower, friend, patron, sponsor, advocate, believer, benefactor, champion, devotee, disciple, fan; antonyms (n) opponent, skeptic, detractor, critic.
- **ΠΙДΧΙ** 1. approach; *synonyms* (n) access, entry, advent, arrival, avenue, coming, entrance, means, method, adit, (v) advance, accost, address, near, approximate; *antonym* (v) leave, **2**. access (Доступ); *synonyms* (n) admission, approach, admittance, entree, gate, attack, doorway, entryway, fit, opening, outburst, passage, (v) enter, infiltrate; *antonym* (n) exit.
- підходити 1. approach; synonyms (n) access, entry, advent, arrival, avenue, coming, entrance, means, method, adit, (v) advance, accost, address, near, approximate; antonym (v) leave, 2. fit; synonyms (v) agree, accommodate, meet, suit, adapt, correspond, square, accord, dress, (adj) decorous, apt, applicable, appropriate, (n) adjust, convulsion; antonyms (adj) unfit, inappropriate, unwell, 3. match; synonyms (n) equal, competition, couple, duplicate, peer, bout, (v) mate, parallel, harmonise, harmonize, balance, fellow, fit, pair, coincide; antonyms (v) clash, contradict, 4. suit; synonyms (n) lawsuit, plea, action, case, petition, cause, courtship, prayer, outfit, (v) answer, become, match, please, satisfy, befit.
- **ШДХОДЯЩИЙ** suitable; *synonyms* (*adj*) appropriate, fit, good, apt, proper, right, convenient, eligible, apposite, correct, desirable, fitting, pertinent, due, (*v*) becoming; *antonyms* (*adj*) inappropriate, unsuitable, wrong, improper.
- ПІДХОЖИЙ 1. eligible; synonyms (adj) competent, fit, due, desirable, proper, capable, licensed, experienced, practiced, privileged, single, skilled, trained, unmarried, (n) bachelor; antonym (adj) ineligible, 2. fit; synonyms (v) agree, accommodate, meet, suit, adapt, correspond, square, accord, dress, (adj) decorous, apt, applicable, appropriate, (n) adjust, convulsion; antonyms (adj) unfit, inappropriate, unwell, 3. apt; synonyms (adj) adroit, apropos, apposite, intelligent, good, able, adequate, convenient, dexterous, efficient, ready, smart, clever, deft, disposed, 4. suitable; synonyms (adj) right, eligible, correct, fitting, pertinent, respectable, fitted, befitting, compatible, decent, expedient, opportune,

- relevant, (n) seasonable, (v) becoming; antonyms (adj) unsuitable, wrong, improper, 5. qualified; synonyms (adj) conditional, proficient, expert, certified, limited, restricted, prepared, provisional, accomplished, responsible, accredited, comparative, dependant, dependent, entitled; antonyms (adj) unqualified, total, unofficial, definite, 6. proper; synonyms (adj) just, agreeable, legitimate, modest, suitable, neat, exact, fair, formal, honest, individual, moral, peculiar, reasonable, seemly; antonyms (adj) unseemly, rude.
- **пізнавання** identification; *synonyms* (n) designation, finding, id, identity, mark, naming, papers, remembering, badge, recognition, denomination.
- III3HABATИ 1. identify; synonyms (v) distinguish, detect, discover, name, ascertain, find, know, mark, pinpoint, place, recognize, see, spot, tell, describe, 2. recognize (визнавати); synonyms (v) acknowledge, discern, identify, admit, allow, appreciate, confess, realize, notice, descry, accredit, agnize, own, perceive, agree.
- пізній late (пізно); synonyms (adj) former, dead, deceased, behindhand, belated, delayed, modern, slow, tardy, dull, defunct, (adv) dilatory, fresh, backward, belatedly; antonyms (adj) ahead, (adv) early, punctually, promptly, punctual.
- пізніше 1. after; synonyms (prep) following, since, (adv) later, beyond, next, subsequently, then, when, afterward, afterwards, behind, (adj) back, posterior, rear, subsequent, 2. later; synonyms (adv) after, (adj) last, ensuing, future, latter, final, succeeding; antonyms (adv) earlier, immediately, before, prior, 3. afterwards.
- ПІЗНІШИЙ later; synonyms (adv) after, afterward, subsequently, afterwards, next, then, since, (adj) following, last, ensuing, future, latter, posterior, subsequent, final; antonyms (adv) earlier, immediately, before, prior.
- пізно late; synonyms (adj) former, dead, deceased, behindhand, belated, delayed, modern, slow, tardy, dull, defunct, (adv) dilatory, fresh, backward, belatedly; antonyms (adj) ahead, (adv) early, punctually, promptly, punctual.
- πiκ peak; synonyms (n) crest, maximum, top, acme, apex, crown, pinnacle, climax, extreme, head, height, mountain, prime, summit, tip; antonyms (n) nadir, base, trough.
- піклування 1. care; synonyms (n) attention, bother, caution, concern, aid, apprehension, custody, keep, maintenance, worry, attendance, affection, (v) anxiety, charge, administer; antonyms (n) carelessness, recklessness, rashness, thoughtlessness, (v) neglect, disregard, 2. custody; synonyms (n) detention, confinement, captivity, care, security, hold, protection, conservation, control, imprisonment, incarceration, keeping, preservation, trust, (adj) tutelage; antonyms (n) release, freedom, 3. attention; synonyms (n) mind, alertness, consideration, heed, notice, attentiveness, concentration, deliberation, diligence, ear, nursing, observation, precision, regard, thought; antonym (n) inattention, 4. thought; synonyms (n) notion, idea, opinion, conception, impression, belief, feeling,

- reflection, sentiment, concept, judgment, cogitation, design, fancy, plan; *antonym* (n) fact.
- IIIK. IYBATHCS 1. attend; synonyms (v) accompany, assist, escort, serve, advert, aid, conduct, follow, hear, help, listen, look, minister, (n) tend, doctor, 2. tend; synonyms (v) guard, incline, lead, lean, nurse, attend, contribute, nurture, run, go, gravitate, nourish, carry, conduce, mind; antonym (v) neglect.
- **пікнік** picnic; *synonyms* (n) excursion, junket, cinch, outing, pushover, snap, jaunt, coportion, expedition, feast, jollification, meal, (v) collation.
- **πίποτ** pilot; *synonyms* (n) guide, leader, aviator, captain, airman, (v) manage, lead, conduct, direct, director, fly, navigate, show, escort, (adj) experimental.
- **ΠΙΛΙΓΑ** exemption; *synonyms* (*n*) dispensation, acquittal, immunity, exception, franchise, freedom, impunity, liberty, privilege, unsusceptibility, license, release, (*v*) excuse, exempt; *antonym* (*n*) liability.
- niha 1. foam; synonyms (n) froth, spume, bubbles, lather, (v) boil, bubble, effervesce, seethe, fizz, suds, ferment, churn, gurgle, rage, (adj) fume, 2. Scum; synonyms (n) foam, dross, refuse, dregs, film, trash, recrement, mob, 3. cream; synonyms (n) pick, ointment, prime, balm, top, liniment, elite, fat, salve, unguent, (adj) flower, milk, (v) best, skim, ream.
- **IIIHUTUCS 1**. cream; *synonyms* (*n*) pick, ointment, prime, balm, top, liniment, elite, fat, salve, unguent, (*adj*) flower, milk, (*v*) best, skim, ream, **2**. scum; *synonyms* (*n*) foam, dross, froth, refuse, dregs, film, trash, recrement, spume, mob.
- **IIII** priest; *synonyms* (*n*) clergyman, minister, ecclesiastic, churchman, cleric, parson, pastor, presbyter, chaplain, monk, (*adj*) divine.
- **піраміда** pyramid; *synonyms* (*n*) pile, mass, heap, congeries, lump, prism, stack, (*adj*) spire, steeple, (*v*) add, amplify, elevate, enhance, enrich, exaggerate.
- **IIIPAT** rover; *synonyms* (*n*) nomad, wanderer, rambler, ranger, roamer, traveler, vagabond, vagrant, itinerant, peregrinator.
- ПІРНАННЯ duck (качка); synonyms (n) darling, canvas, (v) dip, douse, plunge, dodge, circumvent, dive, evade, souse, bob, avoid, crouch, dunk, elude.
- **ПІРНАТИ** duck (качка); *synonyms* (*n*) darling, canvas, (*v*) dip, douse, plunge, dodge, circumvent, dive, evade, souse, bob, avoid, crouch, dunk, elude.
- після 1. after; synonyms (prep) following, since, (adv) later, beyond, next, subsequently, then, when, afterward, afterwards, behind, (adj) back, posterior, rear, subsequent, 2. behind; synonyms (prep) after, abaft, (adv) backward, backwards, late, aback, trailing, (n) backside, bottom, buttocks, can, rump, tail, arse, ass; antonyms (adv) ahead, early, fore.
- пісний lean; *synonyms* (*adj*) emaciated, gaunt, thin, bony, lank, lanky, (*v*) incline, bend, list, slant, bow, careen, pitch, (*n*) tilt, inclination; *antonyms* (*adj*) fat, plump.
- пісня song; *synonyms* (n) melody, air, strain, cry, warble, poem, tune, call, chanson, canticle, (v) ditty, chant, sing, (adj) lay, ballad.
- **πίcoκ** sand; *synonyms* (n) grit, guts, dust, beach, coast, seaside, backbone, dirt, gumption, shore, (ν) sandpaper, rub, smooth, (*adj*) powder.

- mir sweat; synonyms (n) labor, perspiration, lather, sudor, effort, struggle, drudgery, fret, labour, (v) work, perspire, toil, drudge, exude, ooze.
- **mixora** infantry; *synonyms* (n) foot, army, base, foundation, ft, fundament, groundwork, pes, private, substructure, understructure.
- **піч 1.** oven; *synonyms* (n) kiln, furnace, stove, heater, range, boiler, **2**. stove; *synonyms* (n) ambit, chain, compass, grasp, orbit, reach, scope, warmer, **3**. cooker; *synonym* (n) cook, **4**. heater; *synonyms* (n) brasier, bullet, fastball, calefactor, cannabis, dope, fume, gage, ganja, grass, hummer, salamander, smoke, tuyere, marihuana.
- Піщаний sandy; synonyms (adj) gritty, light, granular, arenaceous, sabulous, dusty, farinaceous, loose, mealy, powdery, branny, creamy, flaxen, flocculent, floury.
- плавання 1. swimming; *synonyms* (*adj*) vertigo, liquid, naiant, natatorial, aquatic, dizzy, dripping, flowing, fluent, fluid, giddy, light, (*n*) swim, natation, (*v*) dizziness, **2**. floating; *synonyms* (*adj*) drifting, buoyant, aimless, current, loose, (*adv*) afloat, **3**. swim; *synonyms* (*v*) float, hover, drift, spin, plane, spire, (*n*) dip, swimming, (*adj*) rise.
- плавати 1. swim; synonyms (v) float, hover, drift, spin, plane, spire, (n) dip, swimming, (adj) rise, 2. sail; synonyms (n) voyage, canvas, sheet, ship, vessel, canvass, (v) cruise, navigate, run, glide, cross, sweep, travel, fly, soar.
- IIJIABKA fusion; synonyms (n) amalgamation, coalition, alliance, coalescence, combination, merger, unification, union, compound, amalgam, blend, mixture, synthesis, embodiment, alloy; antonym (n) separation.
- П.ЛАВНИЙ smooth; synonyms (adj) easy, calm, level, oily, facile, flat, flowing, fluent, fluid, glossy, graceful, greasy, (v) quiet, facilitate, even; antonyms (adj) rough, uneven, abrasive, coarse, crumpled, flaking, harsh, jerky, lined, peeling, prickly, ridged, wrinkled, corrugated, (v) wrinkle.
- плазма plasma; *synonyms* (*n*) plasm, onyx, blood, flesh. ПЛАКАТ poster; *synonyms* (*n*) bill, placard, notice, handbill, advertisement, broadside, card, circular, ad, announcement, flyer, posting, sign, (*y*) affiche.
- плакати cry; synonyms (n) shout, bark, scream, yell, clamor, roar, bay, crying, (v) call, bellow, shriek, weep, exclaim, howl, moan; antonyms (v) laugh, whisper.
- план 1. plan; synonyms (n) aim, map, figure, chart, intent, outline, pattern, scheme, invent, form, (v) design, devise, intend, plot, arrange, 2. programme; synonyms (n) broadcast, plan, platform, curriculum, class, course, forecast, preface, programma, (v) program, 3. layout; synonyms (n) arrangement, composition, array, order, display, 4. device; synonyms (n) contrivance, apparatus, appliance, artifice, emblem, contraption, gimmick, invention, trick, way, dodge, expedient, implement, instrument, machination, 5, idea; synonyms (n) belief, concept, meaning, opinion, apprehension, conception, consideration, estimation, fancy, impression, notion, thought, suggestion, feeling, conceit, 6. design; synonyms (n) purpose, drawing, device, idea, copy, blueprint, intention, destination, (v) conceive, contrive, sketch, construct, contemplate, model, concert; antonym

- (n) chance, 7. scheme; synonyms (n) diagram, method, project, schedule, conspiracy, frame, maneuver, schema, system, manoeuvre, (v) intrigue, conspire, connive, engineer, hatch, 8. plot; synonyms (n) lot, graph, patch, action, field, area, collusion, wile, delineate, (v) cabal, plat, concoct, machinate, brew, survey, 9. proposition; synonyms (n) offer, overture, bid, motion, proposal, approach, assertion, premise, advance, position, principle, axiom, lemma, (v) proffer, suggest, 10. proposal; synonyms (n) advice, proposition, hypothesis, presentation, view, question, advocacy, contemplation, measure, recommendation, animus, mind, theory, 11. project; synonyms (n) enterprise, venture, (v) hurl, jut, overhang, protrude, shoot, bulge, cast, extend, throw, draft, chuck, draw, envision.
- планета planet; *synonyms* (*n*) globe, satellite, world, sphere, orbiter.
- **II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.73 (Proof of Section 2) II.74 (Proof of Section 2) II.75 (Proof of**
- планувати 1. plan; synonyms (n) aim, map, figure, chart, intent, outline, pattern, scheme, invent, form, (v) design, devise, intend, plot, arrange, 2. scheme; synonyms (n) contrivance, dodge, arrangement, device, diagram, method, project, schedule, conspiracy, frame, (v) plan, intrigue, conspire, contrive, connive, 3. project; synonyms (n) idea, enterprise, venture, (v) hurl, jut, overhang, protrude, shoot, bulge, cast, extend, forecast, throw, hatch, draft.
- IIJIAHIIIET board; synonyms (n) council, bench, meal, panel, table, office, sign, commission, committee, court, embark, plank, (v) keep, lodge, accommodate; antonym (v) disembark.
- ПЛАСКИЙ flat; synonyms (adj) dull, bland, even, plain, insipid, level, plane, tasteless, dreary, boring, absolute, dead, downright, (n) apartment, (v) uninteresting; antonyms (adj) exciting, high-pitched, bumpy.
- II.JIACT layer; synonyms (n) coat, course, coating, cover, film, level, ply, stratum, crust, covering, floor, mantle, row, tier, (v) pile.
- **IIJIACTUKA** plastic; *synonyms* (*adj*) flexible, ductile, elastic, malleable, pliant, lithe, fictile, pliable, soft, supple, impressionable, artificial, lissom, tractable, (v) limber.
- **ПЛАСТИКОВИЙ** plastic; *synonyms* (*adj*) flexible, ductile, elastic, malleable, pliant, lithe, fictile, pliable, soft, supple, impressionable, artificial, lissom, tractable, (у) limber.
- пластинка plate; synonyms (n) dish, leaf, home, engraving, disc, armor, base, board, bowl, denture, plaque, (v) gild, sheet, cover, coat.
- пластичний plastic; synonyms (adj) flexible, ductile, elastic, malleable, pliant, lithe, fictile, pliable, soft, supple, impressionable, artificial, lissom, tractable, (v) limber.
- **ILJACTMACA** plastic; *synonyms* (*adj*) flexible, ductile, elastic, malleable, pliant, lithe, fictile, pliable, soft, supple, impressionable, artificial, lissom, tractable, (*v*) limber.

- пластмасовий plastic; synonyms (adj) flexible, ductile, elastic, malleable, pliant, lithe, fictile, pliable, soft, supple, impressionable, artificial, lissom, tractable, (v) limber.
- ILJATA 1. pay; synonyms (v) compensate, compensation, liquidate, yield, afford, clear, expend, give, (n) recompense, wage, earnings, fee, salary, allowance, devote; antonym (v) owe, 2. payment; synonyms (n) pay, bonus, charge, cost, defrayal, expense, remuneration, installment, deposit, contribution, defrayment, duty, money, price, (adj) penalty; antonym (n) non-payment.
- платити 1. pay; synonyms (v) compensate, compensation, liquidate, yield, afford, clear, expend, give, (n) recompense, wage, earnings, fee, salary, allowance, devote; antonym (v) owe, 2. give; synonyms (v) allow, bestow, extend, accord, commit, donate, contribute, convey, deliver, dispense, endow, grant, present, administer, apply; antonyms (v) withdraw, take, withhold, 3. render; synonyms (v) interpret, explain, furnish, offer, pay, construe, depict, impart, make, provide, return, translate, cede, concede, exhibit.
- ПЛАТНИЙ paid; synonyms (v) compensated, (adj) gainful, paying, salaried, nonrecreational, profitable, remunerated, remunerative, mercenary, apaid, compensable, hired, hireling, lucrative, rewarding; antonyms (adj) unpaid, due, owing.
- II.JIATHI pay; *synonyms* (v) compensate, compensation, liquidate, yield, afford, clear, expend, give, (n) recompense, wage, earnings, fee, salary, allowance, devote; *antonym* (v) owe.
- **IIJATOCIIPOMOЖHICTЬ** ability; *synonyms* (n) hand, aptitude, capacity, cleverness, dexterity, faculty, power, talent, accomplishment, bent, capability, competency, expertise, flair, genius; *antonyms* (n) inability, injury.
- **ΠJIATTЯ 1.** dress; *synonyms* (n) attire, costume, apparel, array, dressing, clothes, (ν) clothe, clothing, garb, rig, trim, adjust, adorn, bandage, cover; *antonym* (ν) undress, **2.** gown; *synonyms* (n) dress, robe, uniform, tunic, gite, habit, paletot, scrubs, alb, blouse, chasuble, dalmatic, mozetta, scapulary, scarf.
- платформа platform; *synonyms* (n) dais, floor, rostrum, stage, stand, plan, pulpit, ambo, arena, dock, base, pedestal, platforms, amphitheater, (v) program.
- II.J.A.4 cry; synonyms (n) shout, bark, scream, yell, clamor, roar, bay, crying, (v) call, bellow, shriek, weep, exclaim, howl, moan; antonyms (v) laugh, whisper.
- плащ 1. cloak; synonyms (n) mask, veil, camouflage, cape, masquerade, pall, screen, blind, blanket, curtain, (v) cover, wrap, conceal, dissemble, hide; antonyms (v) disclose, reveal, uncover, 2. cape; synonyms (n) cloak, headland, ness, shawl, coat, mantle, point, promontory.
- плед rug (килим); *synonyms* (n) blanket, carpet, carpeting, mat, coverlet, counterpane, quilt, floor, sheet, tarpaulin, bathmat, doormat, flooring, runner, (v) plunder.
- плекати nurse; *synonyms* (n) nurture, doctor, amah, (v) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.

- племінник nephew; synonyms (n) aunt, uncle.
- **ILINEM'S** 1. tribe; synonyms (n) family, clan, house, folk, kin, kindred, nation, people, race, stock, lineage, breed, line, folks, kind, 2. race; synonyms (n) dash, career, competition, pedigree, birth, genus, (v) course, run, rush, fly, hasten, hurry, campaign, hunt, dart.
- плетінка network; *synonyms* (n) net, grid, mesh, netting, reticulation, meshwork, web, grating, lattice, system, complex, (v) link, communicate, contact, exchange.
- плече shoulder; *synonyms* (n) elbow, back, (v) bear, carry, push, hold, jostle, support, sustain, assume, accept, shove, take, thrust, undertake.
- ПЛЕЯДА galaxy; synonyms (n) constellation, beetleweed, bevy, cosmos, galax, bunch, coltsfoot, speckling, wandflower, (adj) array, army, sea, sight, star, sun.
- плита 1. plate; *synonyms* (n) dish, leaf, home, engraving, disc, armor, base, board, bowl, denture, plaque, (v) gild, sheet, cover, coat, 2. cooker; *synonym* (n) cook.
- Π.ΠΗΤΚΑ bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow.
- плівка film; *synonyms* (n) membrane, coating, cloud, cinema, coat, covering, haze, layer, movie, show, skin, fog, crust, flake, (v) mist.
- плід 1. fruit; synonyms (n) effect, crop, outgrowth, product, consequence, issue, produce, production, yield, development, (v) result, return, building, edifice, erection, 2. offspring; synonyms (n) progeny, brood, children, family, child, descendant, descendants, lineage, posterity, race, seed, successor, (v) breed, fruit, generation.
- Π.Π. CHABA mould; synonyms (n) mildew, cast, form, molding, moulding, stamp, modeling, casting, (ν) mold, make, model, frame, fashion, forge, knead.
- II.JITKU 1. gossip; synonyms (n) rumor, chitchat, gab, chatterbox, conversation, babble, comment, talk, blabbermouth, (v) chat, chatter, natter, tattle, blab, chaffer; antonym (n) fact, 2. scandal; synonyms (n) disgrace, dishonor, gossip, outrage, discredit, infamy, disrepute, backbiting, detraction, dirt, ignominy, opprobrium, shame, obloquy, hearsay; antonym (n) honor.
- ПЛІЧ-О-ПЛІЧ alongside; synonyms (prep) by, with, (adv) abreast, aboard, beside, aside, nearby, (adj) next, near
- ПЛІШИВИЙ bald (лисий); synonyms (adj) bare, hairless, simple, austere, meager, threadbare, raw, barefaced, dry, forthright, mere, naked, nude, plain, stark; antonym (adj) hairy.
- плоди yield; synonyms (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; antonyms (v) resist, persevere.
- плодитися breed; synonyms (n) kind, race, variety, ancestry, sort, order, class, genus, (v) engender, beget, multiply, bear, brood, cause, cultivate.
- **ПЛОДОНОШЕННЯ** bearing; *synonyms* (*n*) carriage, demeanor, appearance, approach, aspect, attitude, conduct, deportment, direction, manner, respect, air, aim, behavior, comportment.

- **ILIOM6a 1.** seal; *synonyms* (n) mark, stamp, cachet, hallmark, imprint, impression, signet, (v) plug, bar, close, shut, stop, clinch, lock, (adj) conclude; *antonyms* (v) open, unseal, **2.** stopping; *synonyms* (adj) intercepting, intercipient, (n) stoppage, shutdown, fillet, padding, discontinuance, stay, tompion, tourniquet, filet, lemniscus, stopper, stuffing, wadding.
- IIJOMБУВАТИ stuff; synonyms (n) material, cloth, force, gear, matter, goods, (v) cram, fill, jam, pack, pad, ram, squeeze, glut, gorge; antonym (v) unstuff.
- плоский 1. flat; synonyms (adj) dull, bland, even, plain, insipid, level, plane, tasteless, dreary, boring, absolute, dead, downright, (n) apartment, (v) uninteresting; antonyms (adj) exciting, high-pitched, bumpy, 2. plane; synonyms (n) airplane, face, aeroplane, aircraft, degree, stage, surface, jet, craft, (v) flatten, shave, (adj) flat, horizontal, smooth, flush.
- ПЛОСКОДОННИЙ flat; synonyms (adj) dull, bland, even, plain, insipid, level, plane, tasteless, dreary, boring, absolute, dead, downright, (n) apartment, (v) uninteresting; antonyms (adj) exciting, high-pitched, bumpy.
- **II.JOTL** flesh; *synonyms* (n) brawn, mortality, beef, anatomy, chassis, figure, form, frame, humanity, mankind, meat, muscle, (adj) carnality, concupiscence, lust.
- площа 1. area; synonyms (n) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood, section, sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land, 2. square; synonyms (adj) right, even, rectangular, fair, quadrate, straight, equal, (n) area, foursquare, rectangle, quadrilateral, (v) settle, agree, correspond, (adv) just.
- II.JOIIIAJKA platform; synonyms (n) dais, floor, rostrum, stage, stand, plan, pulpit, ambo, arena, dock, base, pedestal, platforms, amphitheater, (v) program.
- площина 1. flat; synonyms (adj) dull, bland, even, plain, insipid, level, plane, tasteless, dreary, boring, absolute, dead, downright, (n) apartment, (v) uninteresting; antonyms (adj) exciting, high-pitched, bumpy, 2. plane; synonyms (n) airplane, face, aeroplane, aircraft, degree, stage, surface, jet, craft, (v) flatten, shave, (adj) flat, horizontal, smooth, flush.
- ILITYTAHUHA 1. confusion; synonyms (n) bewilderment, chaos, commotion, disarray, agitation, bedlam, clutter, disorder, distraction, disturbance, pandemonium, tumult, bustle, huddle, upset; antonyms (n) clarity, order, 2. mess; synonyms (n) jumble, muddle, confusion, difficulty, hodgepodge, jam, scrape, dilemma, dirt, mash, mayhem, miscellany, muss, (v) botch soil.
- ПЛУТАТИ ball (м'яч); *synonyms* (n) bulb, globe, shot, shell, bead, baseball, bullet, dance, football, lump, orb, party, pellet, projectile, sphere.
- **ILTHOC** plus; *synonyms* (*prep*) besides, with, including, (*n*) extra, advantage, addition, asset, gain, increase, quality, surplus, (*adv*) more, also, and, (*adj*) positive; *antonyms* (*prep*) minus, (*n*) disadvantage.
- пляж beach; synonyms (n) bank, coast, foreshore, shore, strand, coastline, land, seashore, shoreline.

- пляма spot; *synonyms* (n) blot, place, speck, stain, dot, dapple, dirty, location, mark, (v) blemish, soil, fleck, speckle, daub, flaw.
- ПЛЯМИСТИЙ spotted; synonyms (adj) mottled, dappled, speckled, blotchy, dotted, flyblown, piebald, multicolored, dirty, spotty, stained, tainted, besmirched, damaged, freckled; antonym (adj) plain.
- **пляшка** bottle; *synonyms* (*n*) container, flask, jug, jar, pot, carboy, gourd, (*v*) preserve, can.
- по 1. along; synonyms (adv) ahead, forward, lengthwise, on, onward, endlong, (prep) beside, (prf) by; antonym (adv) across, 2. on; synonyms (prep) at, about, concerning, in, into, upon, for, above, over, regarding, (adv) forth, (adj) aboard, (prf) along, against; antonym (adv) off, 3. by; synonyms (prep) of, per, with, (adv) aside, away, past, through, apart, beyond, via, (adv, prep) alongside, 4. about; synonyms (prep) encircling, encompassing, circa, respecting, (adv) around, approximately, almost, nearly, most, roughly, nearby, nigh, (adj) some, near, practically; antonyms (prep) exactly, precisely, 5. after; synonyms (prep) following, since, (adv) later, next, subsequently, then, when, afterward, afterwards, behind, (adj) back, posterior, rear, subsequent, **6**. over; synonyms (adv) more, o'er, too, crosswise, anew, again, (prep) during, (n) overs, (adj) finished, done, extra, odd, gone, out, overhead.
- побажання wish; synonyms (v) desire, hope, like, aspiration, choose, please, bid, (n) want, need, inclination, longing, aim, pleasure, purpose, (adv) will; antonyms (v) dislike, hate.
- **побачення** appointment; *synonyms* (*n*) assignment, date, designation, engagement, fitting, post, rendezvous, berth, conference, election, assignation, commission, encounter, job, meeting.
- побачити sight (зір); synonyms (n) vision, glimpse, prospect, scene, show, view, aspect, eye, eyesight, (v) aim, spot, see, appearance, descry, discern.
- ПОБЕРЕЖЖЯ coast; synonyms (n) bank, beach, seaside, shore, seashore, sand, seacoast, shoreline, (v) glide, slide, drift, cruise; antonym (n) interior.
- **ПОБИТИЙ** beaten; *synonyms* (v) beat, (adj) battered, overpowered, conquered, routed, overcome; **antonym** (adj) victorious.
- **ΠΟΕΙЖΗΜΦ** passing; *synonyms* (*adj*) ephemeral, fleeting, momentary, transient, brief, cursory, fugitive, impermanent, casual, (*n*) overtaking, death, decease, departure, expiration, passage; *antonyms* (*adj*) permanent, lasting.
- **ПОБІЧНИЙ** indirect; *synonyms* (*adj*) circuitous, collateral, incidental, crooked, devious, oblique, roundabout, secondary, side, tortuous, winding, disingenuous, obscure, backhanded, implied; *antonyms* (*adj*) direct, overt.
- **поблизу 1**. near; *synonyms* (*prep*) about, by, around, (*adv*) close, almost, towards, (*adj*) adjoining, adjacent, contiguous, imminent, impending, narrow, (*v*) familiar, approximate, approach; *antonym* (*adj*) distant, **2**. about; *synonyms* (*prep*) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, of, (*adv*) approximately, nearly, most,

- roughly, in, nearby, nigh, (adj) some, near; antonyms (prep) exactly, precisely.
- **ПОБОЖНИЙ** religious; *synonyms* (*adj*) pious, devout, divine, sacred, devoted, godly, holy, saintly, scrupulous, ghostly, solemn, spiritual, strict, (*n*) monk, (*v*) earnest; *antonym* (*adj*) secular.
- **ΠΟΕΟЖΗΙСΤЬ** devotion; *synonyms* (n) adoration, allegiance, attachment, dedication, loyalty, passion, worship, affection, consecration, constancy, devotedness, enthusiasm, fondness, love, (adj) veneration; *antonyms* (n) indifference, disloyalty.
- **ΠΟΕΟΡΟΤИ** overcome; *synonyms* (*v*) conquer, beat, crush, subdue, vanquish, defeat, master, overpower, hurdle, overwhelm, prevail, subjugate, surmount, demolish, (*adj*) beaten; *antonyms* (*v*) fail, (*adj*) victorious, unimpressed.
- **INOBOHOBAHHM 1.** fear (crpax); *synonyms* (*n*) apprehension, awe, alarm, dismay, doubt, anguish, care, consternation, foreboding, fright, trepidation, worry, (*v*) dread, concern, reverence; *antonyms* (*n*) bravery, confidence, fearlessness, reassurance, **2**. apprehension; *synonyms* (*n*) comprehension, arrest, capture, misgiving, understanding, appreciation, anticipation, agitation, conception, detention, fear, horror, notion, premonition, (*adj*) anxiety; *antonyms* (*n*) release, calmness.
- **IIOSPATUM** fellow; *synonyms* (*adj*) comrade, (*n*) companion, associate, boy, equal, brother, chap, colleague, compeer, peer, buddy, dude, dog, counterpart, (*v*) concomitant.
- побудова construction; synonyms (n) building, fabrication, formation, structure, assembly, fabric, frame, organization, production, arrangement, constitution, creation, edifice, make, making; antonym (n) destruction.
- **ПОБУДУВАТИ** construct; *synonyms* (*v*) make, build, compose, erect, fabricate, form, arrange, constitute, manufacture, produce, raise, rear, assemble, compile, (*n*) concept; *antonyms* (*v*) destroy, demolish.
- **повага 1**. respect (поважати); *synonyms* (*n*) honor, esteem, homage, worship, heed, notice, account, consideration, deference, (*v*) regard, observe, admire, appreciate, estimation, keep; *antonyms* (*n*) cheek, insolence, impudence, (*v*) disrespect, scorn, despise, dishonor, disregard, humiliate, **2**. regard; *synonyms* (*v*) attention, concern, estimate, attend, believe, consider, count, hold, reckon, gaze, (*n*) respect, look, note, value, admiration.
- **HOBAWATH 1.** respect; *synonyms* (n) honor, esteem, homage, worship, heed, notice, account, consideration, deference, (v) regard, observe, admire, appreciate, estimation, keep; *antonyms* (n) cheek, insolence, impudence, (v) disrespect, scorn, despise, dishonor, disregard, humiliate, **2.** honour; *synonyms* (n) award, accolade, innocence, awarding, laurels, purity, (v) respect, celebrate, reward, comply, detect, discover, find, follow, maintain, **3.** regard; *synonyms* (v) attention, concern, estimate, attend, believe, consider, count, hold, reckon, gaze, (n) look, note, value, admiration, interest.
- ПОВАЖНИЙ 1. grave; synonyms (adj) austere, critical, serious, severe, solemn, earnest, bad, dangerous, deep.

- grand, important, sad, sedate, (v) acute, engrave; antonyms (adj) mild, frivolous, funny, 2. important; synonyms (adj) essential, grave, fundamental, significant, chief, crucial, key, remarkable, authoritative, big, central, consequential, considerable, decisive, distinguished; antonyms (adj) unimportant, insignificant, trivial, minor, irrelevant, low, worthless.
- **ΠΟΒΑJIИТИ** lay; *synonyms* (v) place, put, fix, set, deposit, install, lie, rest, invest, bear, allay, arrange, (*adj*) secular, (n) ballad, pitch.
- **ΠΟΒΕДΙΗΚΆ** 1. behaviour; *synonyms* (n) behavior, conduct, demeanor, demeanour, deportment, doings, 2. conduct; *synonyms* (n) administration, manage, lead, performance, (v) act, bring, direct, administer, carriage, acquit, bearing, carry, comport, show, accompany, 3. bearing; *synonyms* (n) appearance, approach, aspect, attitude, direction, manner, respect, air, aim, comportment, mien, pose, position, posture, presence.
- повернення 1. return; synonyms (n) yield, pay, recompense, refund, restitution, proceeds, income, (v) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer; antonyms (n) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (v) keep, 2. redemption; synonyms (n) ransom, atonement, salvation, discharge, expiation, buyback, performance, repurchase, fulfillment, acquittal, observance, release, reparation, rescue, satisfaction, 3. retrieval; synonyms (n) reclamation, redress, recuperation, acquisition, convalescence, retrievement, recouping, regaining, seizure, (v) revendication; antonym (n) loss, 4. recurrence; synonyms (n) iteration, repetition, return, frequency, comeback, reappearance, reiteration, relapse, harping, antonym (n) disappearance.
- **ΠΟΒΕΡΗΥΤ** return; synonyms (n) yield, pay, recompense, refund, restitution, proceeds, income, (v) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer; antonyms (n) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (v) keep.
- повертати 1. return; synonyms (n) yield, pay, recompense, refund, restitution, proceeds, income, (v) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer; antonyms (n) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (v) keep, 2. turn; synonyms (v) revolve, deviate, get, revolution, (n) bend, curve, roll, coil, go, twist, bout, change, round, bent, circle, 3. restore; synonyms (v) mend, refresh, reinstate, renew, renovate, fix, rehabilitate, rejuvenate, replace, heal, reconstruct, recover, reestablish, refurbish, (adj) repair, 4. replace; synonyms (v) exchange, substitute, supersede, supplant, displace, shift, deputize, return, succeed, switch, deputise, follow, place, put, trade, 5. repay; synonyms (v) reward, compensate, redeem, remunerate, requite, give, reciprocate, recoup, retaliate, revenge, satisfy, rejoin.
- **ΠΟΒΕΡΤΑΤИСЯ 1.** return; *synonyms* (n) yield, pay, recompense, refund, restitution, proceeds, income, (v) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer; *antonyms* (n) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (v) keep, **2.** turn; *synonyms* (v) revolve, deviate, get, revolution, (n) bend, curve, roll, coil, go, twist, bout, change, round, bent, circle.

- **поверх** floor (підлога); *synonyms* (n) bed, level, base, layer, bottom, flooring, ground, platform, soil, (v) deck, dump, fell, prostrate, stun, baffle; *antonym* (n) top.
- поверхня surface; synonyms (n) level, face, outside, superficies, facet, grain, side, (v) appear, emerge, coat, rise, (adj) exterior, external, shallow, superficial; antonyms (n) core, inside, interior, middle.
- поверховий superficial; *synonyms* (*adj*) cursory, shallow, external, sketchy, slight, apparent, exterior, frivolous, outward, surface, outer, flimsy, empty, facile, ostensible; *antonyms* (*adj*) deep, innate, real, thorough, profound, inner, permanent.
- повести lead (свинець); synonyms (v) head, guide, conduct, contribute, direct, chair, conduce, control, go, govern, bring, convey, give, (n) clue, advantage; antonym (v) follow.
- **IIOB3** past; *synonyms* (*adj*) beyond, bygone, former, old, back, earlier, gone, over, preceding, preterit, previous, (*n*) history, (*adv*) by, before, (*prf*) along; *antonyms* (*adj*) contemporary, current, (*prep*) within, (*n*) future, present, prospect.
- **повзти** snake; *synonyms* (*n*) ophidian, serpent, hydra, (*v*) meander, wind, twist, coil, creep, curl, sneak, weave.
- **ПОВЗУЧИЙ** wandering; *synonyms* (v) unsettled, (*adj*) itinerant, nomadic, stray, erratic, rambling, vagrant, errant, vagabond, migratory, lost, roaming, (n) roving, peregrination, travel.
- повинен must; *synonyms* (*v*) have, need, mold, demand, ought, shall, should, (*n*) essential, necessity, requirement, obligation, necessary, mustiness, requisite, want; *antonym* (*n*) option.
- ΠΟΒИΗΗΙCTЬ must; synonyms (ν) have, need, mold, demand, ought, shall, should, (n) essential, necessity, requirement, obligation, necessary, mustiness, requisite, want; antonym (n) option.
- **ΠΟΒИСНУТИ** flag (πраποр); *synonyms* (n) banner, colors, ensign, sign, fall, iris, (ν) decline, languish, sag, abate, signal, (adj) droop, fade, drop, fail.
- повідомлення 1. message; synonyms (n) communication, meaning, information, errand, letter, mission, dispatch, lesson, note, significance, statement, word, direction, memorandum, advice, 2. notice; synonyms (n) advertisement, attention, declaration, mind, caution, heed, message, observation, (v) look, attend, detect, discover, distinguish, find, mark; antonyms (v) disregard, ignore, 3. advice; synonyms (n) admonition, counsel, warning, exhortation, instruction, intelligence, monition, notice, report, tidings, advisement, announcement, guidance, hint, news, 4. communication; synonyms (n) commerce, communicating, contact, conversation, discourse, epistle, intercourse, expression, language, mail, touch, discussion, association, chat, connection, 5. announcement: synonyms (n) annunciation. proclamation, promulgation, pronouncement, release, intimation, bill, ad, assertion, avowal, bulletin, commercial, disclosure, notification, poster, 6, report: synonyms (n) description, gossip, name, fame, narration, narrative, recital, record, story, (v) account, describe, communicate, recount, relate, notify; antonym (n) fact, 7. item; synonyms (n) piece, detail, article, entry,

- object, point, subject, thing, affair, event, clause, component, entity, feature, (*adv*) also, **8**. note; *synonyms* (*n*) comment, mention, remark, annotation, indication, distinction, importance, line, minute, ticket, (*v*) discern, label, observe, perceive, regard.
- повідомляти 1. inform; synonyms (v) communicate, acquaint, advise, impart, announce, enlighten, tell, familiarize, explain, advertise, apprise, educate, instruct, state, warn, 2. communicate; synonyms (v) deliver, express, carry, commune, convey, intimate, relay, reveal, transmit, divulge, pass, render, return, share, talk, 3. report; synonyms (n) description, gossip, notice, name, fame, message, narration, narrative, news, notification, recital, record, (v) account, describe, recount; antonym (n) fact, 4. convey; synonyms (v) bring, channel, conduct, bear, fetch, transfer, take, transport, mean, cause, cede, consign, ferry, grant, say, 5. announce; synonyms (v) herald, declare, enunciate, proclaim, affirm, annunciate, broadcast, foretell, promulgate, publicize, publish, report, cry, voice, assert, 6. advise; synonyms (v) admonish, inform, propose, recommend, suggest, caution, exhort, forewarn, notify, offer, urge, advocate, confer, submit, persuade; antonym (v) oppose, 7. notice; synonyms (n) advertisement, attention, declaration, information, mind, heed, observation, (v) note, look, attend, detect, discover, distinguish, find, mark; antonyms (v) disregard, ignore.
- **IIOBIKA** lid; *synonyms* (n) cover, top, chapeau, eyelid, hat, closure, restriction, covercle, palpebra.
- повільний slow; synonyms (adj) dull, late, easy, sluggish, heavy, dense, dim, gradual, inactive, indolent, lazy, stupid, (v) slack, (adv) behind, behindhand; antonyms (adj) fast, intelligent, rapid, bright, alert, brisk, hasty, prompt, quick, speedy, hurried, observant, rushed, (v) accelerate.
- повільно 1. slowly; synonyms (adv) tardily, late, deliberately, leisurely, easy, gradually, unhurriedly, belatedly, hard, lethargically, (v) slow, (adj) lento, (adv, adj) piecemeal; antonyms (adv) quickly, fast, hurriedly, immediately, promptly, rapidly, 2. slow; synonyms (adj) dull, sluggish, heavy, dense, dim, gradual, inactive, indolent, lazy, stupid, belated, boring, (v) slack, (adv) behind, behindhand; antonyms (adj) intelligent, rapid, bright, alert, brisk, hasty, prompt, quick, speedy, hurried, observant, rushed, (v) accelerate.
- повінь flood; *synonyms* (*n*) deluge, pour, torrent, stream, (*v*) drench, flow, inundate, glut, drown, flush, gush, rush, submerge, swamp, (*prep*) tide; *antonyms* (*n*) drought, shortage, (*v*) trickle.
- **повіреннй 1**. solicitor; *synonyms* (n) lawyer, advocate, counsel, attorney, petitioner, counselor, factor, bailiff, clerk, secretary, **2**. attorney; *synonyms* (n) agent, solicitor, representative, auctioneer, underwriter, advisor, go-between, investigator, beagle, beak, fixer, front, mouthpiece, mugger, notary.
- **ΠΟΒΙCΤΚΑ** writ; synonyms (n) command, edict, injunction, order, act, agreement, expression, indictment, law, (v) communicate, (adj) brief, common, concise, epitome, prevalent.
- **nobicth 1**. story; *synonyms* (*n*) layer, history, account, narration, narrative, recital, report, tale, fable, falsehood,

- fib, floor, legend, level, novel; **antonym** (n) truth, **2**. narrative; **synonyms** (adj) descriptive, graphic, (n) anecdote, chronicle, relation, story, yarn, description, explanation, statement, fiction, saga, enumeration, memoir, **3**. tale; **synonyms** (n) lie, gossip, romance, fabrication, myth, invention, rumor, untruth, allegory, tell.
- повітря 1. air; *synonyms* (*n*) tune, appearance, manner, atmosphere, look, melody, strain, face, (*v*) ventilate, broadcast, show, transmit, vent, weather, aerate, 2. atmosphere (атмосфера); *synonyms* (*n*) air, ambience, ambiance, aura, environment, feel, feeling, mood, background, quality, climate, medium, setting, situation, surroundings.
- **ПОВІТРЯНИЙ 1**. aerial; *synonyms* (*adf*) airy, aery, ethereal, unreal, insubstantial, aeriform, (*n*) antenna, **2**. air; *synonyms* (*n*) tune, appearance, manner, atmosphere, look, melody, strain, face, (*v*) ventilate, broadcast, show, transmit, vent, weather, aerate.
- повний 1. full; synonyms (adj) complete, absolute, abundant, broad, flush, ample, enough, extensive, total, detailed, comprehensive, copious, good, (n) entire, crowded; antonyms (adj) empty, lacking, starving, hungry, sketchy, incomplete, 2. utter; synonyms (v) express, say, articulate, breathe, speak, state, tell. declare, deliver, emit, pronounce, talk, voice, reveal, disclose; *antonyms* (adj) partial, qualified, 3. complete; synonyms (adj) perfect, consummate, whole, full, stark, accomplished, all, (v) accomplish, achieve, close, finish, execute, act, attain, cease; antonyms (adj) unfinished, abridged, shortened, narrow, (v) neglect, 4. entire; synonyms (adj) integral, utter, clean, gross, intact, mere, unbroken, undivided, universal, radical, dead, livelong, undiminished, (n) stallion, unabridged, 5. overall; synonyms (adj) general, inclusive, aggregate, global, widespread, (adv) generally, everywhere, (n) smock, boilersuit, 6. integral; synonyms (adj) inherent, constitutional, inbuilt, constituent, integrant, organic, exponential, fluxional, (n) differential, 7. total; synonyms (adj) downright, outright, overall, sheer, thorough, unconditional, (n) amount, sum, tally, entirety, quantity. (v) count. number. figure. add. 8. absolute: synonyms (adi) peremptory, categorical, real. unqualified, actual, arbitrary, authoritative, certain, conclusive, dictatorial, extreme, flat, great, indisputable, (n) positive, **9**. round; synonyms (adv) about, around, (adj) circular, plump, chubby, fat, (n) circle, bout, ring, beat, circuit, cycle, (v) compass, turn, gird; antonyms (adj) slim, sharp, 10. perfect; synonyms (adj) exact, faultless, exquisite, blameless, correct, flawless, ideal, immaculate, pure, irreproachable, infallible, (v) fulfill, mature, crown, better; antonyms (adj) imperfect, faulty,
- **HOBHICTIO 1.** fully; *synonyms* (*adv*) all, completely, entirely, downright, enough, amply, full, thoroughly, utterly, well, wholly, abundantly, absolutely, altogether, quite; *antonyms* (*adv*) partially, superficially, **2**. completely; *synonyms* (*adv*) stark, bodily, exactly, fully, perfectly, simply, solely, totally, roundly, right, dead, clean, clearly, (*adj*) out, throughout; *antonyms* (*adv*) partly, hardly, **3**. entirely; *synonyms* (*adv*) alone,

- exclusively, only, really, extremely, just, very, whole, 4. totally; synonym (adj) outright, 5. wholly; synonym (adj) unreservedly, 6. all; synonyms (adv) purely, apiece, (adj) universal, each, every, gross, complete, entire, (n) aggregate, entirety, everything, sum, total, (det) any; antonyms (pron) none, (det) some, 7. altogether; synonyms (adj) absolute, pure, mere, bold, diaphanous, filmy, gauzy, gossamer, simple, steep, transparent, regular, perpendicular, flimsy, (n) perfect; antonyms (adj) gentle, thick, 9. quite; synonyms (adv) sheer, even, fairly, rather, awfully, far, pretty, somewhat, clear, comparatively, considerably, reasonably, sufficiently, moderately.
- повноваження 1. warrant; synonyms (n) guarantee, authority, vouch, authorization, security, certificate, commission, (v) permit, license, assure, justify, sanction, ensure, authorize, empower, 2. authority (влада); synonyms (n) ascendancy, command, administration, dominance, domination, hold, judge, power, professional, rule, warrant, lordship, agency, approval, authorisation.
- повнолітній 1. major; synonyms (adj) chief, key, large, main, superior, considerable, master, grave, fundamental, great, higher, important, leading, overriding, principal; antonyms (adj) minor, unimportant, lesser, petty, slight, 2. adult; synonyms (adj) big, full-grown, mature, elder, developed, grown, older, ripe, responsible, (n) grownup; antonyms (adj) immature, teenage, (n) adolescent, child, juvenile, teenager, infant.
- повноліття majority; synonyms (n) bulk, age, plurality, body, mass, maturity, preponderance, adolescence; antonym (n) minority.
- **ПОВОДЖЕННЯ 1.** usage; *synonyms* (n) habit, practice, employment, method, convention, consuetude, exercise, treatment, usance, wont, ritual, system, (v) use, application, (adj) custom, 2. behaviour; *synonyms* (n) behavior, conduct, demeanor, demeanour, deportment, doings, 3. handling; *synonyms* (n) manipulation, administration, management, running, touch.
- поводитися 1. act; synonyms (n) accomplishment, action, move, play, statute, decree, do, feat, (v) achievement, behave, deed, go, perform, acquit, enact; antonym (v) refrain, 2. behave; synonyms (v) act, conduct, bear, deal, deport, operate, walk, carry, comport, demean, function, react, run, work, (n) exercise; antonym (v) misbehave, 3. handle; synonyms (v) administer, feel, wield, control, direct, finger, manage, manipulate, touch, treat, govern, cope, (n) grip, clutch, grasp.
- поводок lead (свинець); synonyms (v) head, guide, conduct, contribute, direct, chair, conduce, control, go, govern, bring, convey, give, (n) clue, advantage; antonym (v) follow.
- **IIOBOJI** slowly; *synonyms* (*adv*) tardily, late, deliberately, leisurely, easy, gradually, unhurriedly, belatedly, hard, lethargically, (*v*) slow, (*adj*) lento, (*adv*, *adj*) piecemeal; *antonyms* (*adv*) quickly, fast, hurriedly, immediately, promptly, rapidly.

- **HOBOPOT 1.** turning; *synonyms* (*adj*) revolving, rotating, rotary, spinning, wheeling, winding, (*n*) turn, revolution, bend, deviation, conversion, diversion, version, **2.** wind (BiTep); *synonyms* (*n*) air, gust, clue, gale, (*v*) coil, twist, curl, meander, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll, weave, **3.** turn; *synonyms* (*v*) revolve, deviate, get, spin, become, convert, (*n*) go, bout, change, round, bent, circle, shift, tour, bow.
- **ПОВСТАВАТИ** rebel; *synonyms* (*n*) insurgent, nonconformist, anarchist, dissident, insurrectionist, traitor, (*v*) mutiny, renegade, arise, disobey, revolt, rise, oppose, (*adj*) mutineer, rebellious; *antonym* (*n*) conformist.
- **ΠΟΒΕΤΆΗΕΙΙ** rebel; *synonyms* (*n*) insurgent, nonconformist, anarchist, dissident, insurrectionist, traitor, (*v*) mutiny, renegade, arise, disobey, revolt, rise, oppose, (*adj*) mutineer, rebellious; *antonym* (*n*) conformist.
- повстання 1. rebellion; *synonyms* (*n*) insurrection, mutiny, revolt, disobedience, uprising, defiance, outbreak, revolution, unrest, commotion, disorder, rebel, disturbance, insurgence, rising, 2. revolt; *synonyms* (*n*) repulsion, distaste, (*v*) disgust, rebellion, nauseate, sicken, repel, offend, repulse, appall, protest, rebellious, riot, rise, (*adi*) shock.
- повстаньький rebel; synonyms (n) insurgent, nonconformist, anarchist, dissident, insurrectionist, traitor, (v) mutiny, renegade, arise, disobey, revolt, rise, oppose, (adj) mutineer, rebellious; antonym (n) conformist.
- **ΠΟΒ**CTATИ revolt; *synonyms* (n) insurrection, uprising, revolution, (ν) disgust, mutiny, rebellion, nauseate, sicken, rebel, repel, offend, repulse, appall, protest, (adj) shock.
- **HOBCTb** felt; *synonyms* (v) mat, snarl, tangle, braid, entangle, (*adj*) perceived, sensed, conscious.
- **ПОВСЮДНИЙ** general; synonyms (adj) common, comprehensive, national, universal, broad, commonplace, current, ecumenical, public, average, communal, (n) chief, commander, (v) customary, frequent; antonyms (adj) specific, individual, narrow, (n) particular.
- повсякденний everyday; synonyms (adj) common, usual, customary, familiar, routine, accustomed, average, casual, commonplace, daily, frequent, habitual, humdrum, (v) ordinary, general; antonyms (adj) extraordinary, unusual, exquisite.
- повторення 1. repetition; synonyms (n) repeat, gemination, iteration, recurrence, reiteration, replication, duplication, reduplication, rehearsal, repeating, return, echo, reappearance, recital, doubling, 2. recurrence; synonyms (n) repetition, frequency, comeback, relapse, harping; antonym (n) disappearance, 3. rehearsal; synonyms (n) narration, practice, preparation, description, account, explanation, narrative.
- **ΠΟΒΤΟΡИΤИ** repeat; *synonyms* (ν) recite, copy, recapitulate, reduplicate, rehearse, reiterate, return, double, duplicate, iterate, recur, renew, reproduce, say, cite.
- **ПОВТОРНИЙ 1**. second; *synonyms* (*n*) instant, moment, flash, jiffy, minute, sec, (*v*) back, endorse,

- support, encourage, forward, help, (adj) latter, further, (pron) additional; antonym (adj) first, **2**. secondary; synonyms (adj) inferior, lower, minor, subordinate, ancillary, derivative, incidental, auxiliary, indirect, junior, second, less, petty, deficient, (n) proxy; antonyms (adj) basic, main, central, chief, direct, fundamental, major, primary.
- повторно repeatedly; *synonyms* (*adv*) often, frequently, again, regularly, commonly, recurrently; *antonym* (*adv*) seldom.
- **повторювати** repeat; *synonyms* (v) recite, copy, recapitulate, reduplicate, rehearse, reiterate, return, double, duplicate, iterate, recur, renew, reproduce, say, cite
- IIOBTOPIOBATUCЯ repeat; synonyms (v) recite, copy, recapitulate, reduplicate, rehearse, reiterate, return, double, duplicate, iterate, recur, renew, reproduce, say, cite.
- **повчальний** informative; *synonyms* (*adj*) educational, enlightening, illuminating, instructive, edifying, informatory, explanatory, expository.
- **ΠΟΒЧАННЯ** moral; *synonyms* (*adj*) ethical, decent, good, honest, right, chaste, proper, righteous, upright, virtuous, honorable, noble, pure, (*n*) lesson, meaning; *antonyms* (*adj*) immoral, bad, unwholesome.
- **пов'язаний** related; *synonyms* (*adj*) germane, kindred, cognate, relevant, similar, akin, allied, associated, collateral, connected, consanguineous, pertinent, like, near, analogous; *antonym* (*adj*) unrelated.
- **ПОВ'ЯЗУВАТИ** band; *synonyms* (*n*) cluster, party, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, (*v*) ring, combine.
- **поганий 1.** bad, synonyms (adj) evil, adverse, harmful, immoral, naughty, poisonous, sad, sinister, wicked, malicious, infamous, appalling, awful, damaging, (v) decayed; antonyms (adj) fresh, pleasant, well, wellbehaved, (n) good, **2.** ill; synonyms (adj) bad, sick, ailing, diseased, unhealthy, nauseous, (adv) badly, poorly, sickly, (n) harm, complaint, hurt, ailment, mischief, damage; antonym (adj) healthy.
- погано 1. badly; synonyms (adv) awfully, bad, poorly, desperately, evil, ill, seriously, severely, terribly, imperfectly, unkindly, amiss, grievously, hard, (adj) gravely; antonyms (adv) well, skillfully, flawlessly, giftedly, obediently, perfectly, 2. commonly; synonyms (adv) frequently, generally, normally, ordinarily, usually, customarily, currently, habitually, often, regularly, cheaply; antonyms (adv) rarely, unusually, uncommonly, 3. ill; synonyms (adj) sick, ailing, diseased, unhealthy, adverse, harmful, nauseous, (adv) badly, sickly, (n) harm, complaint, hurt, ailment, mischief, damage; antonym (adj) healthy.
- ΠΟΓΑΙΙΙΑΤΗ 1. cancel; synonyms (v) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (adj) abolish, nullify; antonym (v) validate, 2. sink; synonyms (n) sag, basin, (v) decline, dip, droop, fall, set, descend, drop, fell, bury, collapse, decay, flag, founder; antonyms (v) rise, float.
- **ΠΟΓΑΙΠΕΗΗЯ** cancellation; *synonyms* (*n*) annulment, abolition, cancel, negation, recall, termination,

- retirement, annulling, omission, circumduction, receipt, renunciation, abandoning, abolishing, circumlocution.
- **погіршення** deterioration; *synonyms* (*n*) decline, degradation, decay, failure, corruption, damage, debasement, declension, degeneration, impairment, ruin, wear, atrophy, (*adj*) degeneracy, (*v*) depravation; *antonyms* (*n*) improvement, development, growth.
- **ПОГЛИНАННЯ** intake; *synonyms* (*n*) absorption, consumption, ingestion, drinking, eating, uptake, expenditure, receipt, harvest, ingesta, phthisis, tap, usance
- **поглинати** 1. absorb; *synonyms* (*v*) consume, drink, engross, imbibe, assimilate, engage, occupy, suck, swallow, amuse, digest, engulf, fascinate, ingest, (*adj*) immerse; *antonyms* (*v*) bore, emit, **2**. gulf; *synonyms* (*n*) abyss, chasm, bay, cove, abysm, inlet, pit, ravine, rift, hollow.
- **ΠΟΓ JIUHEHHЯ 1**. absorption; *synonyms* (n) assimilation, attention, concentration, inhalation, engrossment, ingestion, preoccupation, abstraction, amalgamation, interest, **2**. merger; *synonyms* (n) combination, fusion, unification, coalition, consolidation, integration, annexation, alliance, association, union, uniting, mixture.
- **погляд 1**. look; *synonyms* (*v*) seem, appear, expect, figure, attend, (n) face, gaze, appearance, aspect, air, countenance, expression, glance, guise, view, 2. view; synonyms (n) look, sight, judgment, opinion, scene, idea, outlook, prospect, thought, notion, (v) regard, observe, see, consider, eye, **3**. glance; *synonyms* (n) glimpse, glitter, looking, (v) peek, flash, bounce, glint, peep, ricochet, allude, brush, burnish, gleam, hint, refer; antonym (v) study, 4. sight (3ip); synonyms (n) vision, show, eyesight, spectacle, ken, (v) aim, spot, descry, discern, perceive, behold, detect, find, notice, (adj) eyesore, 5. notion; synonyms (n) feeling, belief, impression, caprice, concept, conception, fancy, image, imagination, guess, hunch, conjecture, apprehension, consideration, inkling, **6**. opinion; synonyms (n) advice, meaning, mind, counsel, comment, estimate. decision, conviction, attitude, estimation, hypothesis, position, sentiment, supposition, verdict.
- **погода** weather; *synonyms* (*v*) endure, survive, resist, withstand, brave, stand, wear.
- ПОГОДЖЕНИЙ 1. agreed; synonyms (v) content, carried, (adj) approved, fixed, unanimous, set, united, accepted, agreeable, accordant, accredited, chosen, common, (int) okay, (adv) certainly, 2. organic; synonyms (adj) constitutional, natural, constitutive, fundamental, constituent, inherent, structural, whole, raw; antonym (adj) refined.
- **ΠΟΓΟДЖЕНІСТЬ** consensus; synonyms (n) concord, accord, agreement, harmony, unanimity, unity, equality, classlessness, egalitarianism, (adj) unanimous; antonym (n) inequality.
- **ΠΟΓΟДЖЕННЯ 1.** adjustment; *synonyms* (n) adaptation, accommodation, alteration, control, fit, settlement, allowance, arrangement, change, disposition, modification, standardization, agreement, amendment, (adj) adaption, **2.** accommodation; *synonyms* (n) adjustment, compromise, loan, lodging, apartment, appeasement, convenience, ease, facility, fitting,

- housing, (v) advance, **3**. reconciliation; *synonyms* (n) rapprochement, harmony, pacification, reconcilement, accord, mediation, atonement, balancing, (v) concord, peace.
- погоджуватися 1. comply; synonyms (v) agree, accede, assent, acquiesce, consent, accommodate, conform, follow, accept, accord, allow, defer, obey, observe, perform, 2. consent; synonyms (n) acquiescence, consensus, agreement, approval, approbation, compliance, concurrence, sanction, acceptance, (v) approve, concur, admit, coincide, comply, grant; antonyms (n) opposition, refusal, (v) disagree, refuse, veto, 3. ассерt (приймати); synonyms (v) receive, acknowledge, take, recognize, abide, adopt, assume, believe, yield, bear, espouse, have, reconcile, suffer, (n) embrace; antonyms (v) reject, deny, snub, oppose, renounce, resist, 4. admit (допускати); synonyms (v) concede, affirm, confess, include, permit, appreciate, welcome, adjudge, avouch, avow, declare, hold, profess, comprehend, contain; antonym (v) exclude, 5. agree; synonyms (v) adjust, bargain, concord, correspond, fit, harmonize, suit, compromise, align, check, consort, contract, jibe, match, parallel; antonyms (v) differ, argue, object, refute.
- **ΠΟΓΟДИТИСЯ** agree; *synonyms* (v) accord, admit, acknowledge, acquiesce, adjust, accede, bargain, concord, correspond, fit, harmonize, suit, compromise, align, (n) coincide; *antonyms* (v) disagree, oppose, differ, argue, object, refuse, refute.
- **ΠΟΓΟΗЯ** 1. chase; *synonyms* (n) game, search, quest, (v) hunt, pursue, expel, follow, stalk, track, trail, chamfer, pursuit, race, seek, evict, **2**. race; *synonyms* (n) kind, dash, family, career, competition, people, kin, nation, (v) course, run, rush, fly, hasten, hurry, (adj) lineage.
- **пограбування** robbery; *synonyms* (*n*) rape, burglary, depredation, looting, pillage, plunder, theft, holdup, thieving, freebooting, pillaging, spoil, (*v*) despoliation, spoliation.
- ΠΟΓΡΙΕ cellar; synonyms (n) vault, basement, cellarage, winery, cockpit, hold, bound, catacomb, cell, floor, sepulcher, tomb, vineyard, chateau, curvet.
- IIOTPOЖУВАТИ threaten; *synonyms* (v) menace, bully, endanger, intimidate, loom, offer, imperil, jeopardize, peril, approach, foreshadow, portend, browbeat, impend, (n) threat; *antonym* (v) help.
- **ποιτρο3a** threat; *synonyms* (n) menace, danger, hazard, peril, risk, coercion, jeopardy, omen, scourge, terror, warning; *antonym* (n) safety.
- **ПОДАВАТИ 1.** prefer; *synonyms* (v) choose, pick, advance, elect, elevate, favor, like, opt, favour, promote, select, want, dignify, fancy, desire, **2.** present; *synonyms* (*adj*) grant, confer, (n) gift, donation, (v) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; *antonyms* (*adj*) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (*adv*) absent.
- **ΠΟДАЛЬШИЙ** further; *synonyms* (*adv*) farther, again, also, (*adj*) extra, additional, more, another, (*v*) advance, encourage, forward, foster, accelerate, elevate, help, (*n*) promote; *antonym* (*adj*) less.

- **ПОДАННЯ 1.** presentation; *synonyms* (*n*) donation, exhibition, demonstration, display, introduction, performance, offer, appearance, exposition, gift, exposure, induction, intro, overture, presentment, **2**. representation; *synonyms* (*n*) image, depiction, picture, presentation, effigy, diagram, portrait, model, copy, description, emblem, illustration, likeness, example, agency.
- подарунок 1. gift; synonyms (n) donation, faculty, award, flair, capacity, dower, charity, aptitude, bent, (v) present, boon, bestow, (adj) endowment, ability, talent; antonym (n) inability, 2. present; synonyms (adj) grant, confer, current, (n) gift, offering, (v) display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, exhibit; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (adv) absent, 3. presentation; synonyms (n) exhibition, demonstration, introduction, performance, appearance, exposition, exposure, induction, intro, overture, presentment, production, recital, show, debut.
- **ПОДАТИ** give; *synonyms* (v) allow, bestow, extend, accord, commit, donate, contribute, convey, deliver, dispense, endow, grant, present, yield, administer; *antonyms* (v) withdraw, take, withhold.
- ПОДАТЛИВИЙ accessible; synonyms (adj) approachable, available, open, convenient, amenable, easy, handy, obtainable, ready, sociable, (v) weak; antonyms (adj) inaccessible, out-of-the-way, unavailable.
- **ΠΟΛΑΤΟΚ 1.** tax; *synonyms* (n) charge, duty, burden, excise, dues, impost, taxation, (v) assess, task, accuse, impose, load, cess, levy, strain, **2.** duty; *synonyms* (n) business, function, commitment, assignment, chore, obligation, job, must, office, part, responsibility, tax, work, post, custom.
- **ПОДАЧА 1.** serve; *synonyms* (*v*) help, act, aid, assist, attend, benefit, do, function, operate, tend, answer, facilitate, go, (*n*) avail, officiate, **2.** serving; *synonyms* (*n*) portion, helping, service, share, piece, serve, part, plate.
- подвиг 1. deed; synonyms (n) accomplishment, achievement, act, feat, behavior, action, exploit, covenant, activity, document, doing, effort, fact, title, agency, 2. exploit; synonyms (v) exercise, apply, employ, use, abuse, harness, prey, utilize, capitalize, develop, manipulate, misuse, (n) deed, adventure, performance, 3. achievement; synonyms (n) completion, execution, attainment, fulfillment, victory, implementation, acquisition, discharge, gain, realization, success, end; antonym (n) failure.
- подвійний 1. double; synonyms (adj) duplicate, dual, duple, twofold, (v) fold, reduplicate, bend, geminate, plait, (n) twin, image, match, mate, substitute, alternate; antonym (n) single, 2. dual; synonyms (adj) double, duplex, doubled, bivalent, combined, threefold, treble, bifold, binal, common, cooperative, double-dip, doubleheader, forked, matched; antonym (adj) individual.
- **подвір'я 1**. court; *synonyms* (*n*) forum, bar, close, field, tribunal, judicatory, passage, judge, courtroom, courtyard, (*v*) woo, attract, invite, romance, flatter;

- *antonyms* (v) avoid, shun, **2**. yard; *synonyms* (n) court, garden, backyard, grounds, quadrangle, enclosure, beehive, bindery, chiliad, g, grand, m, nailery, pace, slip.
- **подвоювати** double; *synonyms* (*adj*) duplicate, dual, duple, twofold, (*v*) fold, reduplicate, bend, geminate, plait, (*n*) twin, image, match, mate, substitute, alternate; *antonym* (*n*) single.
- **ΠΟДИВ 1.** wonder; *synonyms* (*v*) admire, query, question, reflect, speculate, (*n*) marvel, prodigy, admiration, amazement, astonishment, miracle, surprise, muse, phenomenon, wonderment, **2**. astonishment; *synonyms* (*n*) wonder, confusion, consternation, awe, **3**. surprise; *synonyms* (*n*) fright, surprisal, (*v*) astound, alarm, amaze, astonish, shock, startle, jolt, stun, catch, bewilder, confound, stagger, overwhelm.
- **подих 1**. breath; *synonyms* (*n*) spirit, wind, air, inspiration, puff, aspiration, breather, breeze, flash, flatus, gust, instant, jiffy, respite, (*adj*) whisper, **2**. breathing; *synonyms* (*n*) breath, (*adj*) animate, live, living, alive.
- подібний 1. similar; synonyms (adj) corresponding, alike, like, same, comparable, equivalent, related, akin, analogous, cognate, correspondent, equal, conformable, resembling, (v) identical; antonyms (adj) dissimilar, different, unlike, incompatible, opposing, opposite, 2. analogous; synonyms (adj) similar, analogical, parallel, matching, 3. like; synonyms (v) enjoy, care, desire, fancy, wish, savor, appreciate, please, (adj) such, (adv) as, (n) love, relish, counterpart, affect, match; antonym (v) dislike, 4. corresponding; synonyms (adj) congruent, commensurate, consonant, complementary, proportionate, accordant, congruous, adequate, answering.
- подібність 1. kinship; synonyms (n) consanguinity, affinity, connection, kin, relation, relationship, brotherhood, alliance, blood, kindred, similarity, community, descent, sympathy, 2. similarity; synonyms (n) correspondence, likeness, parallelism, kinship, parallel, identity, conformity, parity, sameness, semblance, comparison, resemblance, similitude, uniformity, equivalence; antonyms (n) dissimilarity, difference, 3. resemblance; synonyms (n) appearance, analogy, imitation, representation.
- ΠΟДΙΒΗΟ likewise; synonyms (adv) also, besides, furthermore, alike, further, moreover, too, equally, similarly, and, more, anyway, (adj) even.
- **поділ 1.** division; *synonyms* (*n*) department, disagreement, allotment, branch, break, class, compartment, part, section, split, cleavage, classification, category, (*adj*) constituent, (*v*) distribution; *antonyms* (*n*) closeness, convergence, estimation, unification, **2.** lap; *synonyms* (*n*) circle, circuit, fold, coil, knee, orbit, (*v*) lick, overlap, bind, (*adv*) compass, encircle, encompass, embrace, enclose, beset.
- поділяти 1. divide; synonyms (v) cut, distribute, part, dissociate, apportion, detach, disconnect, dismember, dispense, separate, share, split, deal, distinguish, (n) break; antonyms (v) unite, join, 2. participate; synonyms (v) partake, engage, enter, figure, appear, collaborate, common, confer, cooperate, discourse, embark, enrol, enroll, feature, infix, 3. share; synonyms

- (n) piece, portion, dole, lot, allotment, division, interest, proportion, ration, section, (v) participate, allot, divide, partition, assign; antonym (v) control, 4. separate; synonyms (adj) detached, individual, particular, single, (v) divorce, insulate, scatter, discrete, discriminate, disjoin, disperse, isolate, demarcate, differentiate, disengage; antonyms (adj) connected, joined, simultaneous, (v) merge, mix, combine, fuse, link, associate.
- **подія 1**. event; *synonyms* (*n*) affair, case, consequence, effect, occurrence, circumstance, contingency, fact, happening, incident, issue, result, aftermath, time, chance, **2**. happening; *synonyms* (*n*) accident, episode, event, experience, occasion, eventuality, fortuity, thing, adventure, business, matter, phenomenon, fate, **3**. occasion (випадок); *synonyms* (*n*) juncture, motive, opportunity, convenience, instance, (*v*) cause, create, beget, breed, induce, make, raise, generate, inspire, engender, **4**. incident; *synonyms* (*n*) anecdote, development, incidence, situation, condition, (*adj*) attendant, concomitant, accessory, incidental, **5**. occurrence; *synonyms* (*n*) act, circumstances, conclusion, deed, example, outburst.
- **ПОДОБАТИСЬ** like; *synonyms* (*v*) corresponding, enjoy, identical, care, desire, fancy, (*adj*) equal, equivalent, alike, analogous, comparable, same, parallel, (*n*) love, relish; *antonyms* (*prep*) unlike, (*v*) dislike, (*adj*) different.
- подобатися 1. like; synonyms (v) corresponding, enjoy, identical, care, desire, fancy, (adj) equal, equivalent, alike, analogous, comparable, same, parallel, (n) love, relish; antonyms (prep) unlike, (v) dislike, (adj) different, 2. please; synonyms (v) delight, gratify, amuse, charm, entertain, like, oblige, enchant, enrapture, accommodate, divert, gladden, indulge, satisfy, (adj) content; antonyms (v) displease, annoy, anger, irritate, distress.
- ПОДОВЖИТИ extend; synonyms (v) expand, enlarge, amplify, broaden, dilate, widen, augment, continue, elongate, go, spread, carry, develop, increase, (adj) stretch; antonyms (v) withdraw, shorten, limit, narrow, shrink
- **ΠΟ**Д**О**Л**АТИ** overcome; *synonyms* (*v*) conquer, beat, crush, subdue, vanquish, defeat, master, overpower, hurdle, overwhelm, prevail, subjugate, surmount, demolish, (*adj*) beaten; *antonyms* (*v*) fail, (*adj*) victorious, unimpressed.
- подорож 1. trip; synonyms (n) excursion, expedition, tour, flight, jaunt, travel, lapse, run, drive, misstep, (v) journey, slip, stumble, fall, (adj) blunder; antonym (v) fix, 2. journey; synonyms (n) passage, trip, way, course, outing, pilgrimage, voyage, circuit, (v) go, cruise, fare, navigate, ramble, ride, walk, 3. voyage; synonyms (n) quest, (v) sail, 4. tour; synonyms (n) round, tramp, turn, spell, circle, hike, bout, perambulation, enlistment, hitch, shift, (v) visit, explore, trek, 5. travel; synonyms (n) pass, stroke, locomotion, traffic, (v) proceed, move, roam, range, track, advance, progress, wander, meander, rove, circulate, 6. wandering; synonyms (v) unsettled, (adj) itinerant, nomadic, stray, erratic, rambling, vagrant, errant, vagabond, migratory, lost, roaming, (n) roving,

- peregrination, vagabondage, 7. travelling; synonym (n) traveling.
- **ΠΟДΟΡΟЖУВАТИ 1.** travel; *synonyms* (n) journey, pass, stroke, passage, tour, (v) go, run, proceed, move, roam, ride, cruise, ramble, sail, (adj) course, **2.** tour; *synonyms* (n) excursion, circuit, round, jaunt, voyage, pilgrimage, tramp, trip, turn, walk, spell, circle, (v) expedition, travel, visit.
- **ПОДОРОЖЧАННЯ** appreciation; *synonyms* (*n*) admiration, acknowledgment, approval, awareness, conception, estimation, feeling, grasp, praise, recognition, respect, taste, understanding, adoration, (*v*) sense: *antonym* (*n*) depreciation.
- **ПОДРІБНЕНИЙ** dusty; *synonyms* (*adj*) powdery, dirty, sandy, sooty, dry, mealy, branny, pulverulent, unclean.
- **ПОДРІБНЮВАТИ** mill; *synonyms* (*n*) grind, factory, grinder, manufactory, machine, plant, engine, gin, notch, shop, implement, (*v*) crush, pulverize, spar, (*adi*) cent.
- подробиця 1. detail; *synonyms* (*n*) report, point, feature, item, circumstance, (*v*) describe, enumerate, relate, appoint, assign, cast, itemize, recite, specify, define; *antonym* (*n*) generalization, 2. particular; *synonyms* (*adj*) special, fastidious, careful, definite, delicate, exact, finicky, fussy, individual, detailed, certain, choosy, circumstantial, critical, (*n*) detail; *antonyms* (*adj*) careless, easy, vague, ordinary, (*n*) general, 3. circumstance; *synonyms* (*n*) affair, state, accident, chance, event, incident, matter, occasion, opportunity, adventure, casualty, fact, occurrence, juncture, crisis.
- **подруга** friend; *synonyms* (*n*) fellow, acquaintance, ally, colleague, crony, advocate, assistant, booster, buddy, mate, connection, wellwisher, (*adj*) associate, companion, comrade; *antonyms* (*n*) enemy, foe, stranger, rival.
- **по-друге 1**. secondly; *synonyms* (*adv*) second, secondarily, besides, **2**. second; *synonyms* (*n*) instant, moment, flash, jiffy, minute, sec, (*v*) back, endorse, support, encourage, forward, help, (*adj*) latter, further, (*pron*) additional; *antonym* (*adj*) first.
- подружжя 1. pair; synonyms (n) match, brace, duet, duo, dyad, coupling, couplet, duad, (v) couple, join, mate, copulate, link, equate, (adj) doublet, 2. spouse; synonyms (n) consort, husband, partner, wife, man, companion, woman, (v) neogamist.
- **подряпина** scratch; *synonyms* (*n*) score, mark, nick, scrabble, dent, abrasion, cut, groove, (*v*) graze, notch, rub, scrape, chafe, rake, grate.
- ПОДУВ 1. blowing; synonyms (v) fanning, (n) bravado, (adj) windy, breezy, 2. breath; synonyms (n) spirit, wind, air, inspiration, puff, aspiration, breather, breeze, flash, flatus, gust, instant, jiffy, respite, (adj) whisper, 3. blow (дути); synonyms (n) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, hit, jolt, rap, (v) bloom, blossom, pant, play, slap, (adj) gasp; antonyms (v) calm, save, 4. sigh; synonyms (n) suspire, breath, wail, suspiration, whimper, whine, sike, (v) moan, groan, breathe, languish, murmur, nine.
- **ПОДУМАТИ** think; *synonyms* (*v*) consider, believe, reckon, estimate, guess, hold, imagine, muse, ponder,

- reflect, regard, suppose, cogitate, conjecture, contemplate; *antonym* (v) forget.
- **подушка 1.** pillow; *synonyms* (*n*) brass, (*v*) cushion, rest, breathe, lie, perch, remain, reside, roost, stay, (*adj*) wadding, **2**. pad; *synonyms* (*n*) apartment, digs, dwelling, (*v*) line, inflate, expand, bolster, stuff, wad, aggrandize, amplify, embroider, magnify, enlarge, extend.
- **подяка 1**. gratitude; *synonyms* (*n*) appreciation, thanks, acknowledgment, feeling, anger, benediction, conviction, credit, recognition, resentment, tribute, honor, impression, merit, obligation; *antonym* (*n*) ingratitude, **2**. acknowledgement; *synonyms* (*n*) acceptance, acclaim, preferment, realisation, realization, **3**. thanks; *synonyms* (*n*) gratitude, blessing, grace, praise.
- **ПОДЯКУВАТИ** thank; *synonyms* (v) acknowledge, bless, remercy, kiss, praise.
- **noe3ia 1.** poetry; *synonyms* (*n*) poem, poesy, verse, song, rhyme, style; *antonym* (*n*) prose, **2.** verse; *synonyms* (*n*) poetry, stanza, strain, measure, clause, paragraph, canto, chapter, count, distich, meter, rhythm, sonnet, text, (*v*) poetize.
- **ΠΟΕΜΑ** poem; *synonyms* (*n*) song, rhyme, verse, ballad, composition, sonnet, construction, fabrication, from, laughingstock, making, measure, meter, metre, writing.
- **IIOET** poet; *synonyms* (*n*) bard, author, maker, lyricist, muse, manufacturer, meditate, muset, novelist, playwright, writer, artist, balladist, critic, dilettante.
- **поетичний** poetic; *synonyms* (*adj*) poetical, romantic, artistic, beauteous, fanciful, graphic, imaginative, anapestic, beautiful, dactylic, dramatic, emotional, epic, epical, epodic.
- **ПОЖАРТУВАТИ** joke (жарт); synonyms (n) jest, banter, hoax, fun, caper, gag, game, quip, antic, farce, humor, jape, jocularity, pleasantry, (v) chaff; antonym (n) tragedy.
- ПОЖВАВЛЕНИЙ lively; synonyms (adj) brisk, active, agile, cheerful, energetic, keen, busy, fresh, gay, jolly, jovial, alert, animated, bright, enthusiastic; antonyms (adj) dull, inactive, lethargic, listless, lifeless, unexciting.
- **ΠΟΆΒΑΒJΗΟΒΑΤΗ** soup (cyπ); *synonyms* (n) broth, predicament, amalgam, combination, compound, explosive, fog, fuel, haze, (v) pottage, potage, drink, liquor, beverage, (adj) emulsion.
- **пожежа** fire; *synonyms* (n) discharge, ardor, conflagration, explode, fervor, flame, (v) excite, eject, blaze, dismiss, ignite, kindle, expel, animate, arouse; *antonym* (v) hire.
- **HOXEPTBA 1.** offering; *synonyms* (*v*) gift, grant, favor, benefaction, boon, (*n*) contribution, donation, oblation, offer, present, presentation, endowment, bestowal, gratuity, reward, **2.** subscription; *synonyms* (*n*) offering, pledge, enrollment, obedience, submission, (*v*) allowance, subsidy, subvention.
- **IIO**XEPTBYBAHHЯ offering; *synonyms* (v) gift, grant, favor, benefaction, boon, (n) contribution, donation, oblation, offer, present, presentation, endowment, bestowal, gratuity, reward.

- **ПОЖИВНИЙ** substantial; *synonyms* (*adj*) actual, solid, firm, real, strong, considerable, important, palpable, significant, essential, momentous, sturdy, sound, concrete, ample; *antonyms* (*adj*) insignificant, insubstantial, small, ethereal, fine, worthless.
- поза 1. beyond; synonyms (prep) above, (adv) further, without, besides, away, by, farther, more, over, abroad, before, past, yonder, (adj) across; antonym (prep) within, 2. attitude; synonyms (n) position, aspect, posture, behavior, mind, notion, air, approach, bearing, disposition, mentality, mood, opinion, outlook, perspective, 3. outside; synonyms (adj) external, out, outdoor, foreign, extraneous, outer, outward, remote, slight, surface, distant, extrinsic, (adv) outdoors, alfresco, (n) exterior; antonyms (prep) inside, in, (adj) indoor, internal, (adv) indoors, 4. stance; synonyms (n) attitude, carriage, manner, pose, stand, viewpoint, location, place, situation, post, standpoint, view, side, 5. plant; synonyms (n) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, (v) fix, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lay, bury, cultivate.
- no3a,y 1. behind; synonyms (prep) after, abaft, (adv) backward, backwards, late, later, aback, beyond, (n) backside, bottom, buttocks, can, posterior, (adj) back, rear; antonyms (adv) ahead, early, fore, 2. back; synonyms (adv) before, (adj) assist, (v) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage, finance, fund; antonyms (n) face, (v) front, oppose, advance, 3. after; synonyms (prep) following, since, (adv) next, subsequently, then, when, afterward, afterwards, behind, (adj) subsequent.
- **позашлюбний** bastard; *synonyms* (*n*) whoreson, scoundrel, cad, mongrel, (*adj*) illegitimate, spurious, fake, misbegotten, phony, adulterate, bastardly, bogus, false, natural, phoney; *antonym* (*n*) legitimate.
- **позбавлення** deprivation; *synonyms* (n) bereavement, privation, cost, loss, need, want, deficiency, absence, damage, dearth, scarcity, destitution, disadvantage, distress, hardship.
- **IIO3EABJISTU** rob; *synonyms* (v) filch, pinch, deprive, pilfer, pillage, plunder, rifle, fleece, lift, purloin, steal, pick, divest, defraud, despoil.
- **позивач** plaintiff; *synonyms* (*n*) complainant, accuser, prosecutor, pursuer, applicant, inquirer, party, querent, appellant, defendant, pretender, (*adi*) plaintive.
- позика 1. loan; synonyms (n) credit, loanword, invest, mortgage, touch, liability, area, artery, ascribe, attribute, (v) advance, lend, trust, rent, add; antonym (v) borrow,
  2. accommodation; synonyms (n) adjustment, compromise, loan, lodging, adaptation, agreement, apartment, appeasement, convenience, ease, facility, fitting, housing, (adj) adaption.
- **позитивний** positive; *synonyms* (*adj*) absolute, certain, affirmative, confident, decisive, definite, direct, explicit, favorable, incontrovertible, peremptory, plus, sure, advantageous, (*n*) actual; *antonyms* (*adj*) negative, derogatory, uncertain, unsure, pessimistic, sad.
- **позитивно** positively; *synonyms* (*adv*) certainly, absolutely, definitely, surely, necessarily, expressly, decidedly, categorically, clearly, favorably, yes, (*adj*) really; *antonyms* (*adv*) disapprovingly, negatively.

- познція 1. position; synonyms (n) place, lay, attitude, condition, employment, opinion, placement, post, rank, set, arrangement, (v) grade, fix, locate, arrange, 2. attitude; synonyms (n) position, aspect, posture, behavior, mind, notion, air, approach, bearing, disposition, mentality, mood, outlook, perspective, pose, 3. stance; synonyms (n) carriage, manner, stand, viewpoint, location, situation, standpoint, view, side, 4. post; synonyms (n) function, office, pillar, stake, berth, column, job, (v) mail, base, enter, seat, send, station, bill, hasten.
- позичати 1. borrow; synonyms (v) adopt, appropriate, assume, take, accept, acquire, plagiarize, cadge, obtain, sponge, usurp, charter, copy, imitate, (n) pledge; antonym (v) lend, 2. loan; synonyms (n) credit, loanword, invest, mortgage, touch, liability, area, artery, ascribe, attribute, (v) advance, trust, rent, add, bestow; antonym (v) borrow, 3. lend; synonyms (v) loan, give, grant, bring, contribute, impart, confer, provide.
- **INO3UHUTU 1.** borrow; *synonyms* (v) adopt, appropriate, assume, take, accept, acquire, plagiarize, cadge, obtain, sponge, usurp, charter, copy, imitate, (n) pledge; *antonym* (v) lend, **2.** lend; *synonyms* (v) loan, advance, give, grant, add, bestow, bring, contribute, impart, confer, provide; *antonym* (v) borrow, **3.** loan; *synonyms* (n) credit, loanword, invest, mortgage, touch, liability, area, artery, ascribe, attribute, calling, condition, degree, (v) trust, rent.
- ΠΟ3**/14KA** loan; *synonyms* (n) credit, loanword, invest, mortgage, touch, liability, area, artery, ascribe, attribute, (ν) advance, lend, trust, rent, add; *antonym* (ν) borrow.
- **ПОЗІРНИЙ** apparent; *synonyms* (*adj*) manifest, discernible, patent, plain, clear, definite, evident, obvious, open, ostensible, perceptible, conspicuous, marked, noticeable, (*adv*) visible; *antonyms* (*adj*) unclear, real, mysterious, obscure.
- позначати mark; synonyms (n) brand, evidence, score, character, heed, impression, imprint, sign, feature, (v) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (adj) notice.
- **ΠΟ3ΗΑЧΑΤИСЯ** tell; *synonyms* (*v*) relate, declare, divulge, express, impart, recount, reveal, explain, announce, command, communicate, describe, distinguish, (*n*) disclose, count; *antonym* (*v*) request.
- **ПОЗНАЧЕНИЙ** marked; *synonyms* (*adj*) distinct, conspicuous, noticeable, pronounced, remarkable, distinguished, apparent, definite, notable, obvious, signal, striking, strong, clear, appreciable; *antonyms* (*adj*) plain, unblemished.
- **ΠΟ3ΗΑЧИТИ** mark; *synonyms* (n) brand, evidence, score, character, heed, impression, imprint, sign, feature, (v) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (*adj*) notice.
- IIO3HAYKA 1. sign; synonyms (n) signal, indication, mark, motion, portent, brand, emblem, imprint, manifestation, omen, poster, presage, wave, (v) gesture, indicate, 2. mark; synonyms (n) evidence, score, character, heed, impression, sign, feature, badge, check, (v) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (adj) notice.

- no30B 1. litigation; synonyms (n) lawsuit, case, suit, action, law, trial, indictment, controversy, contention, debate, contest, disagreement, combat, competition, conflict, 2. action; synonyms (n) act, accomplishment, activity, agency, battle, deed, effect, engagement, fight, movement, performance, play, behavior, measure, (v) achievement; antonyms (n) inaction, inactivity, 3. claim; synonyms (n) call, charge, allegation, privilege, right, title, (v) demand, ask, assert, exact, arrogate, contend, need, require, requisition; antonyms (v) deny, disclaim, forfeit.
- **ПОІМЕННИЙ** nominal; *synonyms* (*adj*) titular, formal, token, minimal, minimum, nominative, (*v*) cognominal; *antonym* (*adj*) real.
- поінформований aware; synonyms (adj) awake, attentive, conscious, heedful, mindful, vigilant, sentient, alert, enlightened, knowing, knowledgeable, observant, sensible, wary, watchful; antonyms (adj) unaware, unconscious.
- no-ihmomy otherwise; synonyms (adv) else, besides, differently, other, alias, elsewise, otherways, diversely, elseways, instead, variously, (adj) different, (conj) before.
- **ΠΟΪ3** π train; *synonyms* (n) chain, string, (v) aim, coach, direct, educate, exercise, trail, tail, tame, discipline, drill, instruct, prepare, school.
- **поїздка 1.** trip (подорож); *synonyms* (*n*) excursion, expedition, tour, flight, jaunt, travel, lapse, run, drive, misstep, (*v*) journey, slip, stumble, fall, (*adj*) blunder; *antonym* (*v*) fix, **2.** journey (подорож); *synonyms* (*n*) passage, trip, way, course, outing, pilgrimage, voyage, circuit, (*v*) go, cruise, fare, navigate, ramble, ride, walk, **3.** voyage; *synonyms* (*n*) quest, (*v*) sail.
- ПОКАЖЧИК indicator; synonyms (n) gauge, index, indication, arrow, indicant, pointer, signpost, sign, signal, symbol.
- показ 1. show; synonyms (v) present, broadcast, expose, guide, indicate, parade, demonstrate, disclose, evidence, (n) display, appearance, exhibit, produce, ostentation, presentation; antonyms (v) conceal, disprove, hide, 2. exhibition; synonyms (n) demonstration, exposition, exposure, fair, manifestation, show, spectacle, scene, array, expo, expression, pageant, performance, presentment, representation, 3. demonstration; synonyms (n) proof, argument, demo, exhibition, illustration, testimony, showing, indication, explanation, protest, sign, token, verification, 4. display; synonyms (n) screen, view, flash, monitor, pomp, (v) brandish, flaunt, reveal, discover, manifest, unfold, air, perform, declare, open, 5. parade; synonyms (n) ceremony, flourish, file, procession, review, place, rally, (v) strut, swagger, troop, walk, process, promenade.
- **IIOKA3AHHЯ 1.** indication; *synonyms* (*n*) clue, evidence, index, designation, direction, mark, forerunner, herald, emblem, gesture, harbinger, hint, reference, cue, allusion, **2.** testimony; *synonyms* (*n*) attestation, declaration, proof, confirmation, testimonial, statement, affidavit, affirmation, demonstration, profession, deposition, certificate, avowal, (*v*) witness, record.
- **ΠΟΚΑ3ΑΤИ** show; *synonyms* (*v*) present, broadcast, expose, guide, indicate, parade, demonstrate, disclose,

- evidence, (n) display, appearance, exhibit, produce, ostentation, presentation; *antonyms* (v) conceal, disprove, hide.
- ПОКАЗНИЙ 1. conspicuous; synonyms (adj) clear, apparent, blatant, manifest, marked, obvious, visible, blazing, bold, distinct, distinguished, eminent, evident, famous, flagrant; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, unobtrusive, 2. affected; synonyms (adj) artificial, unnatural, pompous, pretentious, stilted, pedantic, assumed, concerned, contrived, exaggerated, feigned, forced, pretended, snobbish, strained; antonyms (adj) unaffected, down-to-earth, natural, unchanged.
- **ΠΟΚΑ3ΗΜΚ** indicator; *synonyms* (n) gauge, index, indication, arrow, indicant, pointer, signpost, sign, signal, symbol.
- показувати 1. show; synonyms (v) present, broadcast, expose, guide, indicate, parade, demonstrate, disclose, evidence, (n) display, appearance, exhibit, produce, ostentation, presentation; antonyms (v) conceal, disprove, hide, 2. display; synonyms (n) array, screen, demonstration, exhibition, scene, showing, spectacle, view, performance, fair, (v) show, brandish, flaunt, reveal, discover, 3. demonstrate; synonyms (v) prove, authenticate, attest, establish, argue, certify, confirm, exemplify, explain, manifest, verify, try, declare, proclaim, approve, 4. reveal; synonyms (v) divulge, betray, convey, detect, express, impart, announce, communicate, uncover, find, develop, instruct, break, confess, leak; antonym (v) cover, 5. present; synonyms (adj) grant, confer, current, (n) gift, donation, (v) bestow, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (adv) absent.
- **HOKA3YBATHCH** appear; *synonyms* (*v*) occur, rise, seem, sound, emerge, show, break, arise, arrive, begin, feel, happen, look, surface, (*n*) come; *antonyms* (*v*) disappear, vanish
- ПОКАЛІЧЕНИЙ disabled; synonyms (adj) crippled, handicapped, helpless, incapacitated, invalid, game, mangled, mutilated, weakened, wrecked, unavailable, paralytic, broken, cripply, (adv) aground.
- покарання 1. punishment; synonyms (n) discipline, correction, penalty, penance, chastisement, fine, rebuke, retribution, reward, execution, judgment, retaliation, payment, reprimand, revenge, 2. judgement; synonyms (n) discretion, assessment, discernment, opinion, belief, judging, mind, perspicacity, sagacity, 3. penalty; synonyms (n) mulct, forfeit, forfeiture, amercement, handicap, penalization, sentence, pain, conviction, punishment, sanction, (v) condemnation, 4. correction; synonyms (n) amendment, adjustment, alteration, castigation, redress, modification, emendation, improvement, revision, editing, rectification, reform, change, chastening; antonym (n) fabrication.
- **HOKH 1.** While; *synonyms* (*conj*) as, whereas, although, though, (*n*) spell, time, period, moment, interval, space, bit, (*prep*) during, (*adv*) when, whilst, because, **2**. till; *synonyms* (*prep*) until, unto, (*n*) drawer, tiller, cashbox, (*v*) cultivate, plow, hoe, farm, dig, turn.

- покидати 1. abandon; synonyms (v) quit, relinquish, renounce, resign, vacate, desert, evacuate, leave, waive, depart, abdicate, chuck, ditch, drop, forfeit; antonyms (v) keep, support, maintain, (n) restraint, 2. desert (пустеля); synonyms (n) wilderness, (v) abandon, escape, defect, forsake, abscond, fail, flee, (adj) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, worth, bleak; antonyms (n) bog, (v) stay, 3. leave; synonyms (v) go, lead, lay, allow, bequeath, let, (n) furlough, holiday, permission, permit, break, consent, liberty, license, (adj) empty; antonyms (v) arrive, enter, remain, approach, change, come
- ПОКИДЬКИ 1. waste; synonyms (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; antonyms (v) conserve, save, 2. refuse; synonyms (v) deny, reject, decline, disallow, dross, rebuff, disdain, dismiss, balk, (n) garbage, waste, offal, debris, litter, leavings; antonym (v) accept.
- **ΠΟΚИНУТИ** abandon; *synonyms* (ν) quit, relinquish, renounce, resign, vacate, desert, evacuate, leave, waive, depart, abdicate, chuck, ditch, drop, forfeit; *antonyms* (ν) keep, support, maintain, (n) restraint.
- **ПОКИНУТИЙ** abandoned; *synonyms* (*adj*) forlorn, immoral, deserted, empty, profligate, shameless, stranded, wicked, lonely, corrupt, debauched, depraved, derelict, desolate, discarded; *antonyms* (*adj*) restrained, inhabited, orderly, overcrowded.
- покійний late (пізно); synonyms (adj) former, dead, deceased, behindhand, belated, delayed, modern, slow, tardy, dull, defunct, (adv) dilatory, fresh, backward, belatedly; antonyms (adj) ahead, (adv) early, punctually, promptly, punctual.
- **покірливий** humble; *synonyms* (*adj*) base, docile, low, lowly, modest, unassuming, baseborn, (*v*) degrade, demean, disgrace, abase, debase, humiliate, mortify, conquer; *antonyms* (*adj*) grand, arrogant, conceited, haughty, imposing, impressive, pompous, snooty.
- **покірність** 1. resignation; *synonyms* (*n*) capitulation, endurance, patience, renunciation, surrender, acquiescence, submission, compliance, cession, quit, fall, passiveness, 2. obedience; *synonyms* (*n*) meekness, deference, obeisance, bow, loyalty, observance; *antonyms* (*n*) disobedience, defiance, naughtiness, resistance, 3. submission; *synonyms* (*n*) obedience, bid, offer, entry, presentation, conformity, consent, suggestion, application, tender, complaisance, (*adj*) resignation.
- ПОКЛАДАТИСЯ 1. depend; synonyms (v) dangle, hang, count, rely, calculate, confide, reckon, stay, suspend, attend, 2. reckon; synonyms (v) deem, enumerate, estimate, judge, hold, compute, guess, number, consider, gauge, rate, tally, measure, make, account, 3. rely; synonyms (v) hope, depend, lean, bank, believe, entrust, swear, trust, (n) rest; antonym (v) distrust.
- **покласти 1.** put; *synonyms* (*v*) place, fix, lay, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, (*n*) deposit, **2.** lay; *synonyms* (*v*) put, install, lie, rest, invest, bear, allay, bet, impute, repose, settle. (*adi*) secular. calm. laic. (*n*) ballad.

- **покликання 1**. calling; *synonyms* (*n*) vocation, business, call, occupation, profession, avocation, career, employment, job, trade, walk, pursuit, craft, mission, work, **2**. mission; *synonyms* (*n*) commission, delegation, deputation, assignment, charge, duty, goal, legation, chore, delegacy, errand, task, function, calling, expedition.
- **покоління** 1. generation; *synonyms* (*n*) age, creation, epoch, era, genesis, contemporaries, formation, offspring, period, time, day, birth, family, lifetime, (*v*) germination, 2. tribe; *synonyms* (*n*) clan, house, folk, kin, kindred, nation, people, race, stock, lineage, breed, line, folks, kind, horde.
- **ΠΟΚΟΡΑ** submission; *synonyms* (n) compliance, obedience, acquiescence, bid, deference, offer, surrender, entry, presentation, capitulation, conformity, meekness, consent, suggestion, (*adj*) resignation.
- **ΠΟΚΡΑΙЦУΒΑΤИ** improve; *synonyms* (*v*) advance, heal, emend, help, ameliorate, amend, correct, reform, gain, educate, better, cultivate, develop, enhance, mend; *antonyms* (*v*) worsen, deteriorate, regress, spoil.
- покривати 1. cover; synonyms (v) coat, conceal, top, bury, cloak, (n) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield; antonyms (v) reveal, expose, uncover, 2. cope; synonyms (v) contend, manage, combat, deal, do, struggle, grapple, (n) coping, 3. coat; synonyms (n) cover, coating, crust, film, fur, jacket, layer, bark, case, casing, (v) sheath, plaster, glaze, finish, paint.
- **ΠΟΚΡΗΤΉ** cover; *synonyms* (*v*) coat, conceal, top, bury, cloak, (*n*) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield; *antonyms* (*v*) reveal, expose, uncover.
- **ΠΟΚΡИΤΤЯ** coverage; *synonyms* (n) area, scope, span, extent, insurance, reportage, reporting, compensation, range, size, disclosure, extensiveness, increase, publicity, revelation.
- **ΠΟΚΡΙΒ**JI roof; *synonyms* (n) crown, ceiling, housing, dome, shelter, back, house, (v) top, cover.
- покупець 1. buyer; synonyms (n) purchaser, client, customer, consumer, emptor, shopper, user, vendee, patron; antonyms (n) seller, vendor, 2. purchaser; synonyms (n) buyer, punter, 3. customer; synonyms (n) guest, fellow, passenger, person, spender.
- покупка 1. purchase (купувати); synonyms (n) acquisition, bargain, leverage, acquirement, grip, hold, (v) buy, get, obtain, contract, acquire, bribe, gain, procure, take; antonyms (n) transaction, (v) sell, 2. buy (купувати); synonyms (v) shop, accept, believe, admit, attain, corrupt, trade, cheap, requisition, secure, (n) purchase, deal.
- **покупці** custom; *synonyms* (*n*) tradition, habit, convention, practice, usage, use, fashion, impost, method, observance, order, rite, ritual, (*v*) accustom, (*adj*) bespoke.
- **пола 1.** lap; *synonyms* (*n*) circle, circuit, fold, coil, knee, orbit, (*v*) lick, overlap, bind, (*adv*) compass, encircle, encompass, embrace, enclose, beset, **2**. skirt; *synonyms* (*n*) border, edge, brim, flap, kilt, apron, margin, (*v*) fringe, circumvent, evade, hem, elude, sidestep, verge, dodge.

- поле 1. field; *synonyms* (*n*) arena, area, battlefield, domain, ground, place, battleground, compass, court, department, discipline, range, realm, section, sphere, 2. lea; *synonyms* (*n*) ley, field, grass, pasture, pastureland, bank, eatage, forage, gossip, law, lye.
- **ΠΟ. ΠΕΓΙΠΕΗΗ Я** relief; *synonyms* (*n*) comfort, aid, consolation, ease, help, relaxation, release, respite, solace, abatement, alleviation, encouragement, redress, rest, (*v*) assistance.
- полегшувати 1. facilitate; synonyms (v) assist, aid, ease, help, expedite, alleviate, further, advance, abet, hasten, lighten, promote, relieve, serve, (n) favor; antonyms (v) hinder, obstruct, 2. relieve; synonyms (v) assuage, comfort, allay, mitigate, calm, console, excuse, free, liberate, disengage, deliver, discharge, disembarrass, (n) redress, (adj) absolve; antonyms (v) worsen, burden.
- ПОЛЕМІЧНИЙ controversial; synonyms (adj) argumentative, disputed, arguable, debatable, disputable, disputatious, moot, polemic, polemical, questionable, (v) gladiatorial.
- **ΠΟΛΕΤΙΤИ** fly; *synonyms* (v) escape, dash, drive, flee, glide, elope, aviate, dart, flutter, hop, hover, (n) flap, (adj) break, flit, burst.
- **поливати 1**. water (вода); *synonyms* (*n*) urine, moisture, juice, liquor, crystal, glass, lymph, pee, piddle, (*v*) irrigate, moisten, wet, soak, dampen, dilute, **2**. shower; *synonyms* (*n*) rain, drizzle, barrage, rainfall, torrent, volley, (*v*) pour, bathe, hail, sprinkle, wash, shed, bath, scatter, spray.
- **ПОЛИТИ** water (вода); *synonyms* (n) urine, moisture, juice, liquor, crystal, glass, lymph, pee, piddle, (v) irrigate, moisten, wet, soak, dampen, dilute.
- **полиця 1.** shelf; *synonyms* (n) ledge, rack, bank, flat, projection, board, frame, shallows, stand, support, bench, bracket, breakers, (adj) shallow, **2.** rack; *synonyms* (n) manger, wrack, cage, boot, hob, destruction, (v) torture, excruciate, torment, afflict, agonize, pain, bedevil, crucify, distress, **3.** board; *synonyms* (n) council, meal, panel, table, office, sign, commission, committee, court, embark, plank, administration, (v) keep, lodge, accommodate; *antonym* (v) disembark.
- ноліпшення 1. improvement; synonyms (n) advancement, amelioration, betterment, correction, amendment, development, repair, gain, adjustment, advance, enhancement, headway, revision, growth, melioration; antonyms (n) decline, deterioration, downgrade, 2. amendment; synonyms (n) alteration, redress, improvement, transformation, change, conversion, mend, modification, rectification, reform, variation, 3. reform; synonyms (v) amend, better, correct, rectify, modify, transform, ameliorate, emend, improve, reclaim, regenerate, remodel, renovate, rehabilitate, remedy.
- **ПОЛІПШИТИ** improve; *synonyms* (*v*) advance, heal, emend, help, ameliorate, amend, correct, reform, gain, educate, better, cultivate, develop, enhance, mend; *antonyms* (*v*) worsen, deteriorate, regress, spoil.
- **поліпшувати 1**. improve; *synonyms* (*v*) advance, heal, emend, help, ameliorate, amend, correct, reform, gain,

- educate, better, cultivate, develop, enhance, mend; antonyms (v) worsen, deteriorate, regress, spoil, 2. better; synonyms (adj) superior, major, healthier, (n) bettor, (v) improve, best, recover, exceed, excel, refine, surpass, top, benefit, beat, cure; antonyms (adj) lesser, (adv) worse, (n) inferior.
- **ΠΟ.ΠΙΡΟΒΚΑ** polish; *synonyms* (*n*) finish, gloss, burnish, gentility, cultivation, elegance, refinement, shine, civilization, (*ν*) furbish, glaze, rub, civilize, clean, cultivate.
- **ΠΟJIPYBAHHЯ** polish; *synonyms* (n) finish, gloss, burnish, gentility, cultivation, elegance, refinement, shine, civilization, (ν) furbish, glaze, rub, civilize, clean, cultivate.
- полірувати polish; *synonyms* (n) finish, gloss, burnish, gentility, cultivation, elegance, refinement, shine, civilization, (v) furbish, glaze, rub, civilize, clean, cultivate.
- Полісмен 1. bobby, synonyms (n) clod, dolt, 2. policeman; synonyms (n) cop, officer, detective, watchman, peon, crest, messenger, officeholder, pawn, poon, servant, (adj) patrolman.
- **HO.JIT** 1. flight; *synonyms* (n) escape, herd, flying, run, avolation, exodus, elopement, evasion, departure, aviation, flock, retreat, (adj) bevy, drove, (v) bolt, 2. fly; *synonyms* (v) dash, drive, flee, glide, elope, aviate, dart, flutter, hop, hover, hurry, (n) flap, (adj) break, flit, burst.
- **політехнічний** polytechnic; *synonym* (*adj*) polytechnical.
- **політик** politician; *synonyms* (n) statesman, legislator, politico, lawgiver, pol, statemonger, tactician, demagogue, officer, official, politic, statist, strategist, sycophant, wealsman.
- політика 1. policy; *synonyms* (n) course, plan, approach, insurance, tactics, game, system, method, politics, polity, principle, 2. politics; *synonyms* (n) government, diplomacy, policy, governance, authorities, governing, backroom, bossism, campaigning, civics, electioneering, jungle, legislature, regime, statecraft.
- **політичний** political; *synonyms* (*adj*) politic, national, civil, cunning, following, supporting, ambassadorial, artful, biased, embassy, opinionated, partisan, prudent, sagacious, unscrupulous.
- **ΠΟ.ЛΙΤИЧНІСТЬ** policy; *synonyms* (*n*) course, plan, approach, insurance, tactics, game, system, method, politics, polity, principle.
- **IIOJITYPA** polish; *synonyms* (*n*) finish, gloss, burnish, gentility, cultivation, elegance, refinement, shine, civilization, (*v*) furbish, glaze, rub, civilize, clean, cultivate.
- **ПОЛІЦЕЙСЬКИЙ 1.** constable; *synonyms* (*n*) policeman, alderman, burgomaster, portreeve, alguazil, tipstaff, beagle, committeeman, councilman, councilwoman, detective, seneschal, sheriff, shrieve, warden, **2.** policeman; *synonyms* (*n*) cop, officer, watchman, peon, crest, messenger, officeholder, pawn, poon, servant, (*adj*) patrolman.
- **поліція** police; *synonyms* (n) constabulary, law, officer, investigator, jurisprudence, (v) control, guard, watch, patrol, order, adjust, arrange, legalize, normalize, standardize.

- полічити count (рахувати); synonyms (n) number, calculation, computation, total, (v) calculate, compute, tally, account, cipher, consider, estimate, matter, reckon, weigh, add.
- **полк** regiment; *synonyms* (*n*) army, battalion, corps, host, brigade, division, (*y*) control.
- половина half; *synonyms* (*n*) mediety, halve, piece, bisection, hemisphere, (*adv*) halfendeal, imperfectly, (*adj*) moiety, part, short, behalf, bisected, divided, evensteven, halved; *antonyms* (*n*) whole, all.
- положення 1. position; synonyms (n) place, lay, attitude, condition, employment, opinion, placement, post, rank, set, arrangement, (v) grade, fix, locate, arrange, 2. state (держава); synonyms (n) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, (v) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, articulate, (adj) national; antonyms (v) deny, (adj) private, 3. situation; synonyms (n) job, matter, circumstance, circumstances, location, office, point, seat, site, aspect, bearing, berth, case, environment, posture, 4. provision; synonyms (n) clause, proviso, stock, article, board, requirement, stipulation, store, maintenance. planning, prerequisite, (v) preparation, feed, cater, supply; antonym (n) lack, 5. lay; synonyms (v) put, deposit, install, lie, rest, invest, bear, allay, bet, impose, impute, (adj) secular, calm, (n) ballad, pitch, 6. thesis; synonyms (n) dissertation, argument, essay, theme, topic, hypothesis, premise, proposition, assertion, contention, composition, paper, treatise, discourse, review.
- **ПОЛОМКА 1**. crash; *synonyms* (*n*) clash, collision, smash, clank, clatter, fall, impact, (*v*) bang, collapse, break, clang, crack, dash, plunge, ram, **2**. breaking; *synonyms* (*n*) breach, breakage, violation, contravention, infringement; *antonym* (*n*) observance.
- **ПОЛОНЕНИЙ** prisoner; *synonyms* (n) convict, captive, hostage, accused, criminal, defendant.
- **полоти** pull; *synonyms* (*v*) drag, draw, draught, pluck, attract, haul, jerk, tug, pick, make, force, hale, (*n*) wrench, attraction, effort; *antonyms* (*v*) push, repel.
- **ΠΟΛΟΤΗΜЩE** breadth; *synonyms* (*n*) scope, width, spread, amplitude, area, broadness, extent, latitude, length, size, wideness, stretch, span, distance, abundance; *antonym* (*n*) narrowness.
- **ΠΟΛΟΤΗΟ 1**. cloth; *synonyms* (n) fabric, material, cover, rag, stuff, textile, calling, net, (ν) napkin, **2**. canvas; *synonyms* (n) picture, duck, sail, sheet, (ν) canvass, painting, tableau, **3**. linen; *synonyms* (n) flax, lingerie, boundary, clothesline, contour, direction, doctrine, feature, figure, hawser, instruction, line, lineament, (ν) cloth muslin.
- **ПОЛОТНЯНИЙ** linen; *synonyms* (n) flax, lingerie, boundary, clothesline, contour, direction, doctrine, feature, figure, hawser, instruction, line, lineament, (v) cloth, muslin.
- **ПОЛОХЛИВИЙ** shy; *synonyms* (*adj*) diffident, fearful, timid, abashed, reserved, ashamed, coy, modest, nervous, reticent, self-conscious, backward, (*v*) fling, cast, (*n*) throw; *antonyms* (*adj*) brash, bold, confident, demonstrative, forward, outgoing.
- **полудень 1**. noon; *synonyms* (*n*) midday, noonday, noontide, crest, lunchtime, (*adj*) meridian, culmination,

- meridional, **2**. midday; *synonym* (*n*) noon, **3**. south (південь); *synonyms* (*n*) southland, confederacy, s, confederation, conspiracy, federation, mho, sec, second, siemens, sulfur, sulphur, (*adi*) left, polar.
- полум'я 1. flame; *synonyms* (*n*) blaze, fire, ardour, burning, combustion, enthusiasm, fervor, glare, fervour, (*v*) burn, flash, flare, (*adj*) flush, glow, sweetheart, 2. blaze; *synonyms* (*n*) flame, light, hell, scintillation, blazing, brightness, brilliance, conflagration, (*v*) beam, flicker, mark, shimmer, heat, kindle, coruscate.
- **польський** polish; *synonyms* (n) finish, gloss, burnish, gentility, cultivation, elegance, refinement, shine, civilization, (v) furbish, glaze, rub, civilize, clean, cultivate.
- **полювання 1.** chase; *synonyms* (n) game, search, quest, (v) hunt, pursue, expel, follow, stalk, track, trail, chamfer, pursuit, race, seek, evict, **2.** hunt (полювати); *synonyms* (n) hunting, (v) chase, course, hound, forage, rummage, prey, dog, persecute, trace, comb, dig, explore, look, run, **3.** hunting; *synonyms* (n) cycling, lagging, lookup, pumping, (v) battue, (adj) predatory, **4.** shoot; *synonyms* (v) bud, discharge, dart, dash, drive, flash, send, fire, germinate, grow, inject, (n) scion, branch, sprout, chute.
- **полювати 1.** hunt; *synonyms* (*n*) search, pursuit, quest, (*v*) chase, course, follow, hound, forage, rummage, prey, dog, persecute, pursue, seek, stalk, **2**. chase; *synonyms* (*n*) game, following, (*v*) hunt, expel, track, trail, chamfer, race, evict, drive, furrow, oust, shadow, shoot, (*adj*) emboss.
- **полюс** pole; *synonyms* (*n*) perch, bar, picket, post, rod, support, terminal, axle, beam, axis, extremity, pin, baton, column, pillar.
- **полягати** consist; *synonyms* (*v*) be, belong, lie, comprise, exist, fit, reside, (*n*) abide, agree.
- **ΠΟΛΙΚ** pole; *synonyms* (n) perch, bar, picket, post, rod, support, terminal, axle, beam, axis, extremity, pin, baton, column, pillar.
- **полярний 1.** polar; *synonyms* (*adj*) arctic, diametric, opposite, cold, freezing, glacial, icy, pivotal, diametrical, frigid, frosty, frozen, gelid, (*v*) capital, head, **2.** arctic; *synonyms* (*adj*) polar, north, northern, chilly, piercing, (*v*) boreal, wintry; *antonym* (*adj*) hot.
- помагати 1. help (допомога); synonyms (v) aid, assist, avail, facilitate, favor, ease, alleviate, contribute, (n) assistance, benefit, support, assistant, cure, boost, encouragement; antonyms (v) hinder, worsen, (n) hindrance, detriment, 2. aid; synonyms (n) help, relief, backing, care, hand, lift, patronage, recourse, (v) abet, minister, serve, comfort, countenance, encourage, relieve.
- померлий dead; synonyms (adj) dull, lifeless, cold, defunct, inanimate, absolute, breathless, deceased, extinct, fallen, flat, gone, idle, (adv) right, absolutely; antonyms (adj) alive, animate, (n) living.
- **ПОМЕРТИ** die; *synonyms* (*v*) decease, dead, death, depart, expire, fall, go, pass, conk, croak, break, cease, fail, (*n*) dice, matrix.
- **ΠΟΜΕШКАННЯ** accommodation; *synonyms* (n) adjustment, compromise, loan, lodging, adaptation,

- agreement, apartment, appeasement, convenience, ease, facility, fitting, housing, (v) advance, (adj) adaption.
- **помилка 1.** error; *synonyms* (*n*) deviation, blunder, fault, mistake, wrong, delusion, lapse, oversight, crime, defect, demerit, guilt, misunderstanding, falsehood, confusion; *antonym* (*n*) correctness, **2.** mistake; *synonyms* (*n*) error, failure, misapprehension, misconception, inaccuracy, trip, misprint, (*v*) err, misapprehend, slip, confuse, misjudge, misunderstand, misconstrue, confound, **3.** fault; *synonyms* (*n*) blemish, failing, blame, blot, delinquency, flaw, break, weakness, default, fracture, imperfection, misdeed, offense, (*v*) deficiency, culpability; *antonyms* (*n*) merit, strength, **4.** slip; *synonyms* (*n*) cutting, escape, scion, ticket, band, dip, gaffe, (*v*) fall, slide, drop, glide, skid, sag, shift, (*adj*) omission; *antonym* (*v*) improve.
- помилковий 1. wrong; synonyms (adj) harm, evil, false, ill, improper, bad, inappropriate, incorrect, abuse, criminal, (n) damage, injure, injury, injustice, crime; antonyms (adj) correctl, good, proper, honest, lawabiding, (adv) correctly, (v) right, (n) justice, 2. faulty; synonyms (adj) erroneous, deficient, defective, vicious, broken, inaccurate, wrong, damaged, imperfect, poor, amiss, tainted, blamable, flawed, inadequate; antonyms (adj) perfect, flawless, 3. mistaken; synonyms (adj) misguided, fallacious, untrue, misleading, 4. lying; synonyms (adj) deceifful, deceptive, mendacious, fraudulent, recumbent, deceiving, dishonest, (n) fabrication, falsehood, lie, deceit, dishonesty, duplicity, prevarication, equivocation; antonym (n) honesty.
- **IIOMUJIYBAHHЯ** mercy; *synonyms* (*n*) clemency, compassion, kindness, favor, pity, charity, forgiveness, grace, humanity, leniency, pardon, benevolence, forbearance, mercifulness, quarter; *antonym* (*n*) blame.
- **ПОМИРАЄТЬСЯ** deceased; *synonyms* (*adj*) dead, defunct, asleep, extinct, late, lifeless, gone, (*n*) departed, cadaver, decedent; *antonyms* (*adj*) alive, living.
- помирати die; *synonyms* (v) decease, dead, death, depart, expire, fall, go, pass, conk, croak, break, cease, fail, (n) dice, matrix.
- **помідор** tomato; *synonyms* (*n*) cranberry, female, girl, prostitute, woman.
- **ПОМІРКОВАНИЙ** moderate; *synonyms* (*adj*) temperate, abstemious, middling, mild, easy, (*v*) calm, mitigate, allay, curb, diminish, lessen, ease, cool, abate, (*adv*) check; *antonyms* (*adj*) extreme, immoderate, radical, (*v*) increase, intensify.
- помірний 1. modest; synonyms (adj) humble, bashful, diffident, lowly, moderate, gentle, chaste, decent, low, meek, small, unassuming, unobtrusive, distant, coy; antonyms (adj) arrogant, conceited, elaborate, pompous, pretentious, proud, self-important, showy, spectacular, boastful, conspicuous, grand, immodest, ostentatious, 2. moderate; synonyms (adj) temperate, abstemious, middling, mild, easy, (v) calm, mitigate, allay, curb, diminish, lessen, ease, cool, abate, (adv) check; antonyms (adj) extreme, immoderate, radical, (v) increase, intensify, 3. mild; synonyms (adj) kindly, gracious, benign, lenient, docile, balmy, clement, delicate, kind, sweet, affable, fine, bland, indulgent, compliant; antonyms (adj) intense, pungent, severe,

- sharp, spicy, barbed, fierce, great, hot, incisive, passionate, powerful, scathing, wintry, **4**. medium; *synonyms* (*adj*) intermediate, fair, mid, (*n*) average, mediocre, mean, atmosphere, go-between, instrument, means, vehicle, agency, channel, environment, mediocrity.
- помітний 1. conspicuous; synonyms (adj) clear, apparent, blatant, manifest, marked, obvious, visible, blazing, bold, distinct, distinguished, eminent, evident, famous, flagrant; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, unobtrusive, 2. visible; synonyms (adj) perceptible, conspicuous, open, discernible, noticeable, observable, plain, appreciable, visual, transparent, palpable, overt, glaring, outward, patent; antonyms (adj) invisible, imperceptible, 3. notable; synonyms (adj) celebrated, illustrious, extraordinary, memorable, remarkable, renowned, famed, great, important, noted, noteworthy, outstanding, (n) celebrity, luminary, notability; antonyms (adj) insignificant, ordinary, 4. noticeable; synonyms (adj) notable, considerable, salient, signal, arresting, obtrusive, prominent, striking, pronounced, significant, substantial, unusual, detectable, (v) measurable; antonyms (adj) obscure, hidden, 5. marked; synonyms (adj) definite, strong, emphatic, decided, particular, sharp, special, (v) pointed; antonym (adj) unblemished.
- **ΠοΜίч** aid; *synonyms* (*n*) assist, help, assistance, encouragement, relief, backing, boost, care, (*v*) support, benefit, abet, ease, facilitate, minister, serve; *antonyms* (*n*) hindrance, (*v*) hinder.
- помічати 1. notice; synonyms (n) advertisement, attention, declaration, information, mind, caution, heed, (v) note, look, attend, detect, discover, distinguish, find, mark; *antonyms* (v) disregard, ignore, 2. note; synonyms (n) comment, mention, remark, annotation, indication, bill, distinction, epistle, letter, memorandum, report, importance, (v) notice, record, discern, 3. remark; synonyms (n) observation, regard, commentary, observance, reflection, word, statement, quip, annotate, reference, designate, (v) observe, perceive, see, criticise, 4. detect; synonyms (v) catch, ascertain, spot, trace, determine, identify, locate, descry, sniff, encounter, espy, learn, uncover, 5. observe; synonyms (v) celebrate, commemorate, guard, behold, follow, keep, fulfill, comply, feel, inspect, maintain, obey, watch, honor, eve.
- помічник 1. assistant; synonyms (adj) ancillary, adjunct, (n) accessory, assist, subordinate, acolyte, accomplice, assistance, auxiliary, colleague, helper, adjutant, aide, associate, (v) aid, 2. ally; synonyms (n) confederate, companion, friend, partner, adherent, assistant, comrade, (v) affiliate, align, support, band, connect, league, marry, (adj) coadjutor; antonyms (n) adversary, foe, opponent, 3. aid; synonyms (n) help, encouragement, relief, backing, boost, care, cure, (v) benefit, abet, ease, facilitate, minister, serve, comfort, countenance; antonyms (n) hindrance, (v) hinder, 4. help (ДОПОМОТА); synonyms (v) avail, favor, alleviate, contribute, forward, back, befriend, further, amend, attend, cooperate, correct, encourage, (n) remedy, advantage; antonyms (v) worsen, (n) detriment, 5.

- secondary; synonyms (adj) inferior, lower, minor, derivative, incidental, indirect, junior, second, less, petty, deficient, lesser, additional, (n) proxy, deputy; antonyms (adj) basic, main, central, chief, direct, fundamental, major, primary, 6. subsidiary; synonyms (n) underling, (adj) subservient, secondary, appurtenant, supplemental, supplementary, acceding, accompanying, adjuvant, (v) ministrant, 7. second; synonyms (n) instant, moment, flash, jiffy, minute, see, time, wink, bit, third, (v) endorse, advocate, (adj) latter, (pron) other, (adv) secondly; antonym (adj) first.
- **IIOMIIII** ATH put; *synonyms* (v) place, fix, lay, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, (n) deposit.
- **ПОМІЩИК** landlord; *synonyms* (n) host, proprietor, owner, slumlord, publican, army, freeholder, hotelier, hotelkeeper, saw, throng, vendor; *antonyms* (n) tenant, occupant.
- **ΠΟΜΠΑ** pump; *synonyms* (n) heart, pumps, ticker, (ν) interrogate, draw, examine, milk, question.
- **ΠΟΜCTA** revenge; *synonyms* (*n*) reprisal, retaliation, retribution, vengeance, grudge, payback, punishment, revengement, (*ν*) avenge, retaliate, repay, requite, vindicate, punish.
- **IIOM'SKIIIEHHS** relaxation; *synonyms* (*n*) ease, diversion, amusement, pastime, entertainment, recreation, rest, leisure, comfort, quiet, remission, repose, respite, peace, hobby.
- **ΠοΜ'ЯΚΙΙΙΥΒΑΤΗ 1.** gentle; *synonyms* (*adj*) clement, calm, easy, friendly, soft, affable, balmy, kind, mild, tame, feeble, amiable, benign, bland, (*n*) benevolent; *antonyms* (*adj*) caustic, cruel, fierce, harsh, loud, violent, rough, abrupt, hardhearted, heavy, sarcastic, sheer, steep, **2.** modify; *synonyms* (*ν*) alter, qualify, adapt, change, limit, adjust, amend, assuage, convert, moderate, restrict, vary, commute, fit, revise, **3.** temper; *synonyms* (*n*) mood, character, disposition, humor, nature, condition, anger, irritation, (*ν*) soften, harden, mitigate, modify, season, anneal, (*adj*) mollify; *antonyms* (*ν*) intensify, upset.
- **IIOHAA 1.** above; *synonyms* (*prep*) on, past, surpassing, (*adv*) over, beyond, aloft, supra, up, more, overhead, (*adj*) preceding, former, upper, foregoing, previous; *antonym* (*prep*) below, **2**. over; *synonyms* (*adv*) across, by, o'er, too, crosswise, anew, again, (*prep*) above, during, (*n*) overs, (*adj*) finished, done, extra, odd, gone, **3**. beyond; *synonyms* (*adv*) further, without, besides, away, farther, abroad, before, yonder; *antonym* (*prep*) within.
- ПОНИЖЕННЯ descent; synonyms (n) ancestry, decline, birth, fall, blood, declension, declination, declivity, derivation, drop, extraction, family, lineage, origin, pedigree; antonyms (n) ascent, improvement.
- **nohi 1.** pony; *synonyms* (n) crib, horse, nag, trot, clavis, jigger, tat, beast, cattle, charger, chigger, cot, courser, cribbage, hack, **2.** hobby; *synonyms* (n) fad, amusement, avocation, cockhorse, interest, pastime, pursuit, entertainment, diversion, hobbyhorse, recreation, sideline, activity.
- **ПОНОВЛЕННЯ** continuation; *synonyms* (*n*) continuance, sequel, resumption, maintenance,

- elongation, postscript, duration, extension, supplement; *antonyms* (*n*) discontinuance, end.
- **ПОНОВЛЮВАТИ** resume; *synonyms* (v) recover, continue, regain, restart, summarize, outline, revert, adopt, renew, (n) digest, synopsis, abstract, summary, epitome, recapitulation.
- HO-HOBOMY newly; synonyms (adv) lately, new, recently, freshly, late, anew, fresh, again, latterly, (adj) afresh
- ПОНУРИЙ gloomy; synonyms (adj) dark, black, cheerless, dejected, depressing, desolate, disconsolate, dismal, downcast, dim, dingy, downhearted, dull, funereal, melancholy; antonyms (adj) bright, cheerful, cheery, encouraging, happy, hopeful, light.
- **INCHATTR 1.** notion; *synonyms* (*n*) feeling, belief, idea, impression, caprice, concept, conception, fancy, image, imagination, opinion, guess, hunch, conjecture, (*v*) judgment, **2.** concept; *synonyms* (*n*) notion, theory, view, vision, construct, perception, thought, **3.** conception; *synonyms* (*n*) creation, mind, apprehension, comprehension, design, invention, understanding, initiation, appreciation, awareness, conceit, grasp, inkling, intellection, observation; *antonym* (*n*) misconception, **4.** idea; *synonyms* (*n*) meaning, consideration, estimation, plan, suggestion, appearance, aim, estimate, hypothesis, inspiration, object, purpose, reason, supposition, suspicion.
- попереджати 1. Warn; synonyms (v) admonish, advise, caution, counsel, inform, alert, threaten, exhort, notify, reprove, tell, deter, discourage, dissuade, instruct, 2. caution; synonyms (n) advice, carefulness, precaution, vigilance, wariness, warning, admonition, attention, caveat, circumspection, forethought, prudence, judiciousness, (v) care, warn; antonyms (n) recklessness, carelessness, rashness, 3. notice; synonyms (n) advertisement, declaration, information, mind, heed, message, observation, (v) note, look, attend, detect, discover, distinguish, find, mark; antonyms (v) disregard, ignore.
- попередження 1. Warning; synonyms (n) notice, advice, caution, indication, example, lesson, admonition, caveat, hint, premonition, sign, alarm, counsel, (adj) monitory, cautionary; antonym (adj) encouraging, 2. caution; synonyms (n) carefulness, precaution, vigilance, wariness, warning, attention, circumspection, forethought, prudence, judiciousness, monition, (v) care, warn, admonish, advise; antonyms (n) recklessness, carelessness, rashness, 3. notice; synonyms (n) advertisement, declaration, information, mind, heed, message, observation, (v) note, look, attend, detect, discover, distinguish, find, mark; antonyms (v) disregard, ignore.
- **ПОПЕРЕДЖУВАТИ** prevent; *synonyms* (*v*) obstruct, anticipate, block, forbid, arrest, avert, avoid, bar, debar, exclude, forestall, hamper, impede, obviate, (*n*) hinder; *antonym* (*v*) encourage.
- **попередник** predecessor; *synonyms* (n) precursor, forerunner, ancestor, antecedent, antecessor, father, elder, precedent; *antonyms* (n) successor, descendant.
- **попередній 1**. prior; *synonyms* (*adj*) former, preceding, anterior, earlier, foregoing, past, previous, preliminary,

- advance, antecedent, before, introductory, (n) abbot, cenobite, conventual; antonym (adj) subsequent, 2. preliminary; synonyms (adj) prefatory, early, inaugural, elementary, first, preparatory, proemial, (n) prelude, preface, prelim, introduction, overture; antonym (n) final, 3. tentative; synonyms (adj) doubtful, experimental, provisional, probationary, trial, exploratory, shy, cautious, conditional, hesitant, indecisive, indefinite, provisionary, undecided; antonyms (adj) definite, sure.
- попереду ahead; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, beforehand, formerly, forward, onward, previously, beyond, fore, forth, forwards, on, onwards, winning, (*adj*) front, (*n*) lead; *antonyms* (*adv*) behind, late.
- **IIOHEPEYKA** rail; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, balustrade, handrail, railing, fence, banister, track, path, pale, paling, bolt, barrier, (*v*) inveigh, vituperate, fulminate.
- поперечний cross; *synonyms* (*n*) crisscross, affliction, (*v*) intersect, baffle, cover, thwart, (*adj*) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; *antonyms* (*v*) uncross, (*adj*) calm, good-tempered.
- по-перше firstly; *synonyms* (*adv*) first, foremost, initially, originally, basically, formerly; *antonym* (*adv*) lastly.
- **ПОПЕЧИТЕЛЬ** trustee; *synonyms* (*n*) fiduciary, guardian, regent, consignee, keeper, steward, custodian, questor, receiver.
- **попіл** ash; *synonyms* (*n*) jasmine, lilac, privet, spark, (*v*) cinder, scoriae, soot, (*adj*) gray.
- **ΠΟΠ. JABELL 6** bob; *synonyms* (n) shilling, jump, (v) curtsy, dock, bow, toss, dip, bend, bounce, cut, jiggle, reel, tail, tap, trim.
- **ΠΟΠ.JECKYBAHHЯ** pat; *synonyms* (n) tap, knock, clap, touch, beat, rap, slap, smack, stroke, hit, fondle, apposite, apt, (v) caress, dab.
- **ΠΟΠ.JECKYBATH** pat; *synonyms* (*n*) tap, knock, clap, touch, beat, rap, slap, smack, stroke, hit, fondle, apposite, apt, (*ν*) caress, dab.
- **поповнення 1**. recruitment; *synonyms* (*n*) employment, enrollment, enlisting, mobilization, **2**. renewal; *synonyms* (*n*) renaissance, revival, rebirth, reclamation, rehabilitation, renovation, restoration, reform, regeneration, innovation, refurbishment, rebuilding, reconstruction, recovery, reformation.
- **ΠΟΠΟΗA** blanket; *synonyms* (n) bedding, sheet, counterpane, covering, coverlet, (v) cloak, cover, (*adj*) sweeping, overall, comprehensive, global, generic, wholesale, broad, general.
- **ΠΟΠΡΑΒИΤИ** adjust; *synonyms* (*v*) temper, accommodate, adapt, align, acclimatize, balance, fit, fix, reconcile, regulate, set, alter, arrange, (*adj*) dress, (*n*) square.
- **поправка 1**. amendment; *synonyms* (*n*) alteration, betterment, correction, redress, improvement, revision, transformation, adjustment, change, conversion, mend, modification, rectification, reform, variation, **2**. correction; *synonyms* (*n*) amendment, castigation, chastisement, discipline, emendation, punishment, editing, rebuke, chastening; *antonym* (*n*) fabrication.
- **ΠΟΠΡΑΒЛЯТИ** adjust; *synonyms* (*v*) temper, accommodate, adapt, align, acclimatize, balance, fit, fix,

- reconcile, regulate, set, alter, arrange, (adj) dress, (n) square.
- попросити ask; *synonyms* (*v*) inquire, request, appeal, beg, demand, interrogate, question, take, beseech, call, charge, claim, consult, crave, invite; *antonym* (*v*) answer.
- популярний popular; synonyms (adj) common, general, current, fashionable, democratic, customary, known, plain, pop, celebrated, notorious, prominent, famous, familiar, (v) favorite; antonyms (adj) unpopular, aristocratic, disliked.
- популярність 1. popularity; synonyms (n) celebrity, fame, renown, repute, vogue, account, appreciation, prevalence, prestige, popularness, acclaim, allure, appeal, attraction, attractiveness, 2. fame; synonyms (n) credit, distinction, report, reputation, bruit, honor, buzz, eminence, hearsay, kudos, name, notoriety, rumor, (v) cry, esteem; antonyms (n) infamy, obscurity, anonymity, 3. availability; synonyms (n) accessibility, handiness, approachability, availableness, opening, supply, 4. publicity; synonyms (n) advertisement, promotion, advertising, propaganda, exposure, buildup, disclosure.
- пора day; synonyms (n) light, daylight, generation, age, daytime, epoch, time, crisis; antonyms (n) nighttime, night.
- nopaдa 1. suggestion; synonyms (n) hint, advice, intimation, proposal, allusion, counsel, dash, proposition, recommendation, sign, touch, trace, clue, implication, indication, 2. counsel; synonyms (n) caution, advocate, advisement, admonition, attorney, consultation, counselor, exhortation, guidance, (v) advise, consult, admonish, confer, exhort, urge, 3. advice; synonyms (n) warning, instruction, intelligence, monition, notice, report, tidings, announcement, communication, direction, information, news, tip, word, adhortation, 4. recommendation; synonyms (n) praise, commendation, suggestion, advocacy, reference, approval, endorsement, testimonial, 5. tip; synonyms (n) top, peak, point, pinnacle, apex, bribe, crown, gratuity, summit, extremity, (v) incline, tilt, dump, lean, slant.
- **ΠΟΡΑДИТИ** advise; *synonyms* (ν) admonish, acquaint, inform, propose, recommend, suggest, warn, apprise, caution, exhort, forewarn, instruct, notify, offer, tell; *antonym* (ν) oppose.
- **πορα3κα 1**. defeat; *synonyms* (n) frustration, ruin, beating, (v) crush, overcome, beat, conquer, abolish, baffle, foil, overpower, repulse, rout, subdue, (adj) rebuff; *antonyms* (n) victory, success, win, (v) lose, surrender, **2**. beating; *synonyms* (n) reverse, defeat, thrashing, whipping, battery, battering, debacle, drubbing, hammering, pounding, pulsation, pulse, throbbing, thumping, (adj) pulsing.
- ПОРАНЕНИЙ 1. case; synonyms (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, (adj) patient, 2. patient; synonyms (adj) invalid, forbearing, passive, calm, enduring, resigned, tolerant, uncomplaining, stoical, lenient, meek, persistent, considerate, indefatigable; antonym (adj) impatient.
- **поранити 1**. wound; *synonyms* (*n*) bruise, harm, pain, injury, scratch, (*v*) hurt, cut, damage, offend, injure, stab,

- sting, insult, maim, bite, **2**. hurt; **synonyms** (v) wound, afflict, ail, cost, anguish, grieve, (adj) evil, upset, (n) detriment, ache, disadvantage, abuse, distress, lesion, agony; **antonyms** (v) encourage, (adj) uninjured, unhurt.
- IIOPIBHY 1. equally; synonyms (adv) alike, as, evenly, also, justly, likewise, similarly, (adj) even, (conj) both; antonym (adv) inconsistently, 2. evenly; synonyms (adv) equally, flatly, regularly, smoothly, calmly, consistently, coolly, directly, downright, dully, easily, exactly, gradually, homogeneously, (adj) gradual; antonym (adv) unevenly.
- порівнювати 1. compare; synonyms (v) collate, liken, confront, comparison, equate, associate, contrast, correlate, equal, equalize, parallel, resemble, (n) comparability, 2. contrast; synonyms (n) contrariety, antithesis, distinction, difference, variation, collation, opposite, dissimilarity, (v) differ, conflict, oppose, diverge, clash, counterpoint, differentiate; antonym (n) similarity, 3. confront; synonyms (v) face, front, challenge, approach, brave, defy, affront, play, compare, dare, encounter, meet, resist, withstand, accost; antonyms (v) avoid, evade.
- **порівняльний** comparative; *synonyms* (*adj*) relative, qualified, proportionate, approximate, illustrative, near, allusive, analogous, approaching, conditional, connected, contingent, contrastive, correlative, (*n*) compeer.
- **порівняний** comparable; *synonyms* (*adj*) analogous, corresponding, like, alike, commensurate, equal, equivalent, parallel, same, similar, akin, matching, (*v*) allusive; *antonyms* (*adj*) different, dissimilar, incomparable.
- **порівняння** comparison; *synonyms* (*n*) analogy, compare, likeness, resemblance, comparing, contrast, correspondence, parallel, similarity, connection, relation, ratio, parable, comparability, (*prep*) antithesis; *antonym* (*n*) dissimilarity.
- **IIOPIBHATU** compare; *synonyms* (v) collate, liken, confront, comparison, equate, associate, contrast, correlate, equal, equalize, parallel, resemble, (n) comparability.
- **πορir** threshold; *synonyms* (*n*) brink, limen, beginning, doorsill, doorstep, entrance, entry, outset, doorway, edge, vestibule, border, limit, door, porch.
- **IIOP13** cut; *synonyms* (v) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (n) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (v) increase, lengthen, (n) addition, extension.
- ПОР13АНИЙ cut; synonyms (v) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (n) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; antonyms (v) increase, lengthen, (n) addition, extension.
- **ΠΟΡΊ3ΑΤИ** cut; *synonyms* (*v*) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (*n*) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, lengthen, (*n*) addition, extension.
- **по-різному** differently; *synonyms* (*adv*) otherwise, diversely, contrarily, abnormally, adversely, antagonistically, antithetically, asymmetrically, conflictingly, contradictorily, contrastingly,

- contrastively, disparately, distinctively, divergently; *antonyms* (*adv*) alike, similarly.
- порода 1. breed; synonyms (n) kind, race, variety, ancestry, sort, order, class, genus, (v) engender, beget, multiply, bear, brood, cause, cultivate, 2. species; synonyms (n) breed, appearance, form, character, type, show, sight, stock, strain, phenomenon, (adj) nature, description, manner, fashion, (v) offspring, 3. rock; synonyms (n) boulder, calculus, pillar, (v) jar, sway, cradle, jolt, shake, toss, waver, quake, pitch, reel, (adj) pebble, stone.
- **ПОРОДЖУВАТИ** generate; *synonyms* (v) breed, develop, bear, beget, cause, engender, get, provoke, create, father, produce, raise, reproduce, yield, make.
- порожній 1. empty; synonyms (adj) discharge, hollow, destitute, bare, blank, barren, abandoned, deserted, vain, (v) drain, clear, deplete, desolate, pour, spill; antonyms (adj) full, crowded, meaningful, packed, brimming, inhabited, occupied, swarming, cultivated, filled, laden, (v) fill, 2. vacant; synonyms (adj) empty, devoid, free, idle, unfilled, unoccupied, void, expressionless, open, vacuous, inane, available, listless, disengaged, unemployed, 3. blank; synonyms (adj) clean, vacant, deadpan, dull, impassive, inexpressive, negative, straight, white, (n) space, form, emptiness, gap, hiatus, lacuna; antonyms (adj) animated, expressive.
- **ΠΟΡΟΚ** defect; synonyms (n) fault, blemish, blot, flaw, shortcoming, deficiency, failing, imperfection, scar, weakness, dearth, deformity, foible, (v) desert, (adj) infirmity.
- **ποροм** ferry; *synonyms* (n) ferryboat, boat, ford, pass, passage, ship, (ν) carry, convey, transfer, transport, take, bring.
- **TIOPOTTЯ** beating; *synonyms* (n) reverse, beat, defeat, thrashing, whipping, battery, battering, debacle, drubbing, hammering, pounding, pulsation, pulse, rout, (adi) pulsing; antonym (n) victory.
- **nopox 1**. dust; *synonyms* (*n*) powder, dirt, grit, relics, remains, rhino, soil, blunt, debris, (*v*) clean, sprinkle, spray, wipe, spread, scatter, **2**. powder; *synonyms* (*n*) dust, gunpowder, explosive, (*v*) grind, crush, pound, pulverise, pulverize, bespangle.
- ПОРОЧНИЙ vicious; synonyms (adj) evil, bad, depraved, malicious, brutal, cruel, malevolent, venomous, wicked, immoral, nasty, barbarous, corrupt, poisonous, savage; antonyms (adj) kind, gentle, friendly.
- **ποροιμοκ 1.** powder; *synonyms* (n) dust, gunpowder, explosive, (v) grind, crush, pound, pulverise, pulverize, sprinkle, bespangle, **2**. flour; *synonyms* (n) flower, (v) powder, (adj) meal, bran, paddy, rice, spore, sporule.
- **πορτ** port; synonyms (n) harbor, haven, asylum, carriage, demeanor, pier, mien, bearing, deportment, dock, embrasure, gate, harbour, (adj) larboard, left; antonym (n) starboard.
- портативний 1. portable; synonyms (adj) mobile, movable, portative, light, convenient, manageable, pocket, carriageable, cartable, compact, haulable, itinerant, lightweight, supportable, wieldy; antonym (adj) fixed, 2. handy; synonyms (adj) adroit, available, apt, clever, expert, deft, dexterous, good, accessible,

- easy, commodious, functional, near, nearby, (n) ready; antonyms (adj) useless, clumsy.
- **ΠΟΡΤΒΕЙΗ** port; *synonyms* (n) harbor, haven, asylum, carriage, demeanor, pier, mien, bearing, deportment, dock, embrasure, gate, harbour, (adj) larboard, left; *antonym* (n) starboard.
- **ΠΟΡΤΕΡ** porter; *synonyms* (*n*) carrier, doorkeeper, gatekeeper, janitor, caretaker, doorman, ostiary, concierge, redcap.
- **ПОРТИК** porch; *synonyms* (n) lobby, hall, veranda, vestibule, balcony, door, entrance, portico, inlet, doorway, patio, portal, chops, conservatory, lips.
- **портрет 1**. portrait; *synonyms* (*n*) effigy, image, icon, likeness, delineation, depiction, figure, painting, photograph, picture, portraiture, portrayal, characterization, **2**. picture (картина); *synonyms* (*n*) paint, drawing, description, film, illustration, landscape, photo, portrait, (*v*) describe, draw, depict, fancy, imagine, copy, envision.
- **портфель 1**. portfolio; *synonyms* (*n*) briefcase, album, file, bandolier, budget, chair, book, quiver, **2**. bag; *synonyms* (*n*) pocket, pouch, package, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (*v*) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net, pilfer.
- порука 1. bail; *synonyms* (*n*) pledge, security, surety, bond, guarantee, handle, (*v*) deliver, **2**. caution; *synonyms* (*n*) advice, carefulness, precaution, vigilance, wariness, warning, admonition, attention, caveat, circumspection, counsel, (*v*) care, warn, admonish, advise; *antonyms* (*n*) recklessness, carelessness, rashness.
- **nopy4** 1. alongside; *synonyms* (*prep*) by, with, (*adv*) abreast, aboard, beside, aside, nearby, (*adj*) next, near, 2. close; *synonyms* (*adj*) adjacent, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, brief, airless, (*v*) compact, stop, conclude, (*adv*) about, (*n*) end, finish, conclusion, expiration; *antonyms* (*adj*) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (*v*) open, start, 3. near; *synonyms* (*prep*) around, (*adv*) close, almost, towards, approximately, (*adj*) adjoining, contiguous, imminent, impending, coming, closer, handy, (*v*) familiar, approach, intimate.
- **IIOPY 4EHb** list; *synonyms* (n) catalog, catalogue, file, inclination, index, schedule, calendar, enumeration, inventory, (v) lean, tilt, enter, enumerate, incline, itemize.
- поручитель 1. bond; synonyms (n) association, tie, alliance, deed, agreement, cement, attachment, bail, connection, joint, link, adhesion, (v) bind, band, adhere, 2. guarantee; synonyms (n) assure, guaranty, warranty, assurance, pledge, warrant, bond, collateral, deposit, (v) certify, promise, engage, endorse, ensure, secure, 3. bail; synonyms (n) security, surety, guarantee, handle, (v) deliver.
- **поруччя** rail; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, balustrade, handrail, railing, fence, banister, track, path, pale, paling, bolt, barrier, (*v*) inveigh, vituperate, fulminate.
- ПОРУШЕНИЙ broken; synonyms (v) broke, (adj) tame, torn, busted, imperfect, intermittent, rough, rugged, ruined, uneven, disjointed, incomplete, confused, cracked, crushed; antonyms (adj) constant, unbroken, intact, whole, wild.

- **ΠΟΡΥΙΠΕΗΗЯ** breach; *synonyms* (n) aperture, chink, crack, crevice, fracture, gap, infringement, opening, rift, split, trespass, (v) break, rupture, contravene, fissure; *antonym* (n) observance.
- nopymybatu 1. break; synonyms (v) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (n) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; antonyms (v) repair, obey, honor, mend, (n) continuation,
  2. disturb; synonyms (v) agitate, disconcert, disorder, disquiet, distract, distress, perturb, trouble, annoy, bother, commove, concern, derange, disarrange, discompose; antonyms (v) arrange, calm, please, smooth, soothe.
- порція 1. portion; *synonyms* (*n*) part, division, piece, constituent, allot, component, fragment, parcel, section, dole, allowance, (*v*) lot, dividend, divide, allotment, **2**. serving; *synonyms* (*n*) portion, helping, service, share, help, serve, plate.
- **поря**д alongside; *synonyms* (*prep*) by, with, (*adv*) abreast, aboard, beside, aside, nearby, (*adj*) next, near.
- **ПОРЯДКОВИЙ** serial; *synonyms* (*adj*) sequential, consecutive, recurrent, sequent, successive, regular, nonparallel, (*n*) periodical, series.
- **ПОРЯДНИЙ 1.** decent; *synonyms* (*adj*) proper, adequate, appropriate, acceptable, becoming, comely, decorous, honest, modest, respectable, right, seemly, sufficient, chaste, ethical; *antonyms* (*adj*) immoral, unwholesome, inappropriate, disreputable, filthy, inadequate, indecent, unsuitable, **2.** respectable; *synonyms* (*adj*) reputable, considerable, decent, estimable, fair, good, honorable, creditable, passable, goodish, goodly, hefty, sizable, straight, tidy.
- **порядок** order; *synonyms* (*n*) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (*v*) direct, commission, arrange, call; *antonyms* (*n*) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (*v*) disorder, request.
- порятунок rescue; *synonyms* (n) deliverance, release, delivery, salvage, relieve, liberation, (v) deliver, extricate, ransom, free, recover, redeem, save, help, liberate; *antonyms* (n) involvement, loss, (v) abandon.
- посада 1. post; synonyms (n) place, function, office, position, pillar, stake, attitude, berth, column, job, (v) mail, locate, base, enter, lay, 2. position; synonyms (n) condition, employment, opinion, placement, post, rank, set, arrangement, bearing, location, (v) grade, fix, arrange, install, point, 3. appointment; synonyms (n) assignment, date, designation, engagement, fitting, rendezvous, conference, election, assignation, commission, encounter, meeting, naming, selection, allotment, 4. capacity; synonyms (n) capability, aptitude, capacitance, intelligence, talent, might, dimension, content, endowment, faculty, gift, measure, potential, power, (adj) ability; antonyms (n) inability, incapability, 5. job; synonyms (n) chore, work, business, career, duty, matter, occupation, task, concern, labor, line, mission, profession, stint, trade, 6. office; synonyms (n) charge, agency, appointment, division, authority, bureau, part, establishment, department, role, service, situation, spot, force, lieu, 7. seat; synonyms (n) bench, backside, behind, bottom, buttocks, chair,

- posterior, rear, rump, residence, foundation, home, (v) put, contain, hold, **8**. place; *synonyms* (n) domicile, order, circumstance, center, abode, dwelling, house, (v) station, deposit, pitch, lie, commit, dispose, establish, identify; *antonym* (v) remove.
- **ПОСАДИТИ** plant; *synonyms* (*n*) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, (*v*) fix, place, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lay, bury.
- ПОСАДОВИЙ official; synonyms (adj) formal, functional, regular, proper, sanctioned, magisterial, (n) officer, minister, bureaucrat, executive, functionary, administrator, (v) authoritative, administrative, authentic; antonyms (adj) unofficial, private, illegal, informal.
- **посвідка 1.** certificate; *synonyms* (*n*) bond, diploma, certification, credential, credentials, document, license, testimonial, warrant, authentication, deed, docket, bill, (*v*) certify, sanction, **2.** ticket; *synonyms* (*n*) pass, card, label, certificate, ballot, check, slate, tag, mark, slip, voucher, plank, platform, price, (*v*) fine.
- **ΠΟCBIДЧЕННЯ 1.** warrant; *synonyms* (n) guarantee, authority, vouch, authorization, security, certificate, commission, (v) permit, license, assure, justify, sanction, ensure, authorize, empower, **2.** certificate; *synonyms* (n) bond, diploma, certification, credential, credentials, document, testimonial, warrant, authentication, deed, docket, bill, award, coupon, (ν) certify.
- **IIOCEJIEHHЯ 1.** colony, *synonyms* (n) settlement, community, plantation, dependency, village, mandate, possession, protectorate, assembly, closure, colonisation, colonization, flock, nation, territory, **2.** settlement; *synonyms* (n) decision, accommodation, colony, hamlet, payment, arrangement, conclusion, resolution, determination, contract, adjustment, agreement, establishment, liquidation, reconciliation, **3.** location; *synonyms* (n) localization, orientation, position, berth, emplacement, fix, lieu, locale, locating, scene, setting, attitude, bearing, address, place.
- IIOCEPEДНИК 1. broker; synonyms (n) mediator, agent, go-between, factor, middleman, dealer, attorney, intermediary, bailiff, merchant, 2. agent; synonyms (n) agency, broker, deputy, medium, instrument, ambassador, channel, delegate, doer, envoy, means, procurator, surrogate, spy, (v) actor, 3. intermediate; synonyms (adj) average, mean, mediate, mid, middle, moderate, central, halfway, median, mediocre, fair, (v) intercede, interjacent, intercurrent, arbitrate.
- IIOCEPEQHUILTBO 1. agency; synonyms (n) bureau, office, authority, commission, expedient, factor, instrument, means, organ, way, efficiency, activity, board, (v) action, act, 2. intervention; synonyms (n) intercession, interference, intermediation, intervene, arbitration, hindrance, intermission, (adj) mediation, interposition.
- ПОСЕРЕДНІЙ 1. ordinary; synonyms (adj) middling, average, familiar, mediocre, usual, commonplace, everyday, habitual, normal, mean, banal, (n) common, customary, accustomed, (v) general; antonyms (adj) extraordinary, unusual, incredible, outstanding, peculiar, strange, special, distinguished, famous, 2. mean; synonyms (v) intend, design, imply, denote, involve, (adj) middle, base, hateful, ignoble, medium, miserly, abject,

- beggarly, (n) contemptible, low; *antonyms* (adj) generous, kind.
- **посилання 1**. reference; *synonyms* (*n*) citation, mention, quotation, quote, allusion, bearing, connection, recommendation, innuendo, annotation, character, concern, consultation, (*v*) cite, refer, **2**. note; *synonyms* (*n*) comment, remark, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, letter, memorandum, (*v*) notice, mind, look, detect; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- **посилати 1**. send; *synonyms* (*v*) despatch, pass, convey, deliver, dispatch, forward, give, mail, post, carry, divert, project, beam, cast, channel, **2**. refer; *synonyms* (*v*) allude, apply, pertain, submit, commend, advert, impute, name, relate, invoke, adduce, ascribe, attribute, consign, appeal.
- **посилатися** refer; *synonyms* (*v*) allude, apply, pertain, submit, deliver, commend, advert, impute, name, relate, invoke, adduce, ascribe, attribute, consign.
- **ΠΟCUJIUTU** strengthen; *synonyms* (*v*) consolidate, confirm, corroborate, brace, encourage, enhance, fortify, intensify, invigorate, bolster, buttress, harden, increase, stiffen, toughen; *antonyms* (*v*) weaken, undermine.
- **ПОСИЛКА** parcel; *synonyms* (*n*) lot, bale, pack, bundle, division, package, packet, section, batch, plot, patch, allotment, (*v*) portion, distribute, apportion.
- **ПОСИЛЬНИЙ 1.** carrier; *synonyms* (*n*) bearer, messenger, courier, mailman, porter, postman, vehicle, transport, envoy, bag, channel, container, emissary, newsboy, solvent, **2.** runner; *synonyms* (*n*) contrabandist, offset, sprinter, offshoot, contestant, smuggler, stolon, candidate, carpet, flume, ingate, mooncurser.
- **ΠΟCUJHOBATU** reinforce; *synonyms* (*v*) bolster, intensify, enhance, buttress, consolidate, fortify, support, enforce, harden, recruit, reenforce, strengthen, amplify, increase, assist; *antonym* (*v*) weaken.
- **ПОСІБНИК** manual; *synonyms* (n) handbook, guide, guidebook, brochure, primer, text, textbook, compendium, grammar, abecedary, codex, libretto; *antonyms* (adj) automatic, mechanized.
- **ΠΟCISTH** seed; *synonyms* (*n*) germ, issue, posterity, root, offspring, progeny, origin, nucleus, brood, embryo, source, beginning, (*v*) inseminate, plant, sow.
- IIOCJASJIOBATU 1. damp; synonyms (adj) moist, muggy, clammy, cool, dank, humid, (v) break, check, chill, deaden, benumb, (n) wet, dampness, moisture, clamminess; antonyms (adj) dry, (n) dryness, 2. reduce; synonyms (v) lower, pare, abbreviate, curtail, cut, debase, abate, condense, contract, diminish, shorten, concentrate, compress, (adj) abridge, lessen; antonyms (v) increase, bolster, expand, enlarge, exacerbate, intensify.
- **ПОСЛАНЕЦЬ** ambassador (посол); *synonyms* (n) agent, delegate, emissary, envoy, messenger, minister, deputy, embassador, herald, representative, diplomat.
- **ΠΟCJIATU** send; synonyms (v) despatch, pass, convey, deliver, dispatch, forward, give, mail, post, carry, divert, project, beam, cast, channel.
- **послідовний 1**. consequent; *synonyms* (*adī*) ensuing, following, resultant, resulting, sequent, attendant, consequential, next, succeeding, successive, (v)

- subsequent, 2. consecutive; synonyms (adj) sequential, continuous, serial, straight, uninterrupted, continual; antonym (adj) concurrent, 3. gradual; synonyms (adj) gentle, progressive, slow, deliberate, moderate, (adv. adj) piecemeal; antonyms (adj) sudden, dramatic, instant, unexpected, 4. consistent; synonyms (adj) coherent, uniform, agreeable, compatible, congruous, constant, logical, conformable, consonant, regular, unchanging, unvarying, accordant, equable, firm; antonyms (adj) inconsistent, erratic, contradictory, illogical, unpredictable, unreliable.
- послідовність 1. consistency; synonyms (n) consistence, agreement, body, coherence, consonance, conformity, congruence, congruity, density, uniformity, accordance, concord, compatibility, consentaneousness, accord; antonyms (n) inconsistency, discrepancy, 2. sequence; synonyms (n) order, series, succession, course, arrangement, chain, consequence, episode, line, procession, progression, concatenation, pattern, continuity, cycle, 3. succession; synonyms (n) sequence, round, run, lineage, row, string, continuation. reversion, consecution, set, successiveness, suite, train, flow, harping, 4. order; synonyms (n) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (v) direct, commission, arrange, call; antonyms (n) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (v) disorder, request, 5. progression; synonyms (n) advance, progress, headway, improvement, furtherance, development, evolution, gradation, way, growth, movement, passage, process, current, (v) advancement.
- IIOCJIVIA 1. accommodation; synonyms (n) adjustment, compromise, loan, lodging, adaptation, agreement, apartment, appeasement, convenience, ease, facility, fitting, housing, (v) advance, (adj) adaption, 2. favour; synonyms (v) favor, choose, prefer, privilege, 3. kindness; synonyms (n) benevolence, clemency, compassion, courtesy, generosity, affection, benignity, consideration, cordiality, friendliness, gentleness, goodness, grace, graciousness, humanity; antonyms (n) unkindness, callousness, cruelty, miserliness, nastiness, spite, unfriendliness, maliciousness, 4. office; synonyms (n) charge, agency, duty, function, position, commission, appointment, division, authority, berth, bureau, job, part, place, post.
- **IIOCMITU** dare; *synonyms* (*v*) defy, brave, hazard, confront, resist, risk, disobey, (*n*) challenge, venture, adventure, daring, defiance.
- **IIOCMIXATUCЯ** smile; *synonyms* (*n*) grin, grinning, smiling, expression, luck, (*v*) beam, laugh, chuckle, grimace, sneer, countenance, favor, propitiousness; *antonym* (*v*) frown.
- **ΠΟCMILIKA** 1. grin; *synonyms* (*n*) smile, grinning, smirk, simper, (*v*) beam, laugh, sneer, leer, **2**. smile; *synonyms* (*n*) grin, smiling, expression, luck, (*v*) chuckle, grimace, countenance, favor, propitiousness; *antonym* (*v*) frown.
- **ποτο** ambassador; *synonyms* (n) agent, delegate, emissary, envoy, messenger, minister, deputy, embassador, herald, representative, diplomat.

- **ΠΟCO.TLETO** embassy; *synonyms* (n) deputation, legation, delegation, mission, commission, errand, cable, communication, diplomat, diplomatist.
- **ΠΟCΠΙΧ** press; *synonyms* (*n*) jam, closet, (*v*) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (*adj*) constrain.
- поспішати hurry; *synonyms* (n) speed, haste, dispatch, flurry, (v) bustle, hasten, accelerate, dash, expedite, scurry, fly, run, rush, zip, hie; *antonyms* (n) slowness, (v) dawdle.
- **ΠΟCΠΙΙΙΗΟ** hastily; synonyms (adv) fast, hurriedly, precipitately, promptly, rapidly, helter-skelter, carelessly, impetuously, imprudently, quickly, rashly, speedily, suddenly, thoughtlessly, (adj) headlong; antonyms (adv) slowly, carefully.
- **HOCT** post; *synonyms* (*n*) place, function, office, position, pillar, stake, attitude, berth, column, job, (*v*) mail, locate, base, enter, lay.
- IIOCTABA 1. attitude; synonyms (n) position, aspect, posture, behavior, mind, notion, air, approach, bearing, disposition, mentality, mood, opinion, outlook, perspective, 2. presence; synonyms (n) appearance, front, attendance, manner, mien, carriage, comportment, figure, demeanor, company, look, being, existence, spirit, (adj) breeding; antonyms (n) absence, nonattendance.
- IIOCTABATH arise; synonyms (v) rise, appear, ascend, emerge, issue, mount, originate, proceed, result, awake, commence, develop, emanate, ensue, follow.
- **поставка** supply; *synonyms* (*n*) provision, hoard, (*v*) furnish, stock, afford, fill, store, feed, offer, provide, cater, contribute, deliver, equip, give.
- **IIOCTAHOBA** ruling; synonyms (adj) leading, regnant, reigning, prevailing, prevalent, (n) judgment, rule, decision, decree, edict, act, directive, judgement, law, opinion.
- **IIOCTAHOBKA 1.** setting; synonyms (n) frame, scene, adjustment, scenery, backdrop, background, mount, position, environment, environs, location, mounting, place, scope, set, 2. production; synonyms (n) output, generation, product, manufacturing, performance, creation, formation, produce, staging, fabrication, fruit, manufacture, origination, presentation, (v) exhibition.
- HOCTATb 1. figure; synonyms (n) form, appearance, character, estimate, shape, cost, build, contour, emblem, fashion, (v) design, cast, count, calculate, cipher, 2. form; synonyms (n) figure, arrange, ceremony, class, conformation, (v) make, constitute, establish, carve, construct, create, do, compose, comprise, contrive.
- **постачальник** supplier; *synonyms* (n) provider, vendor, contractor, dealer, benefactor, contributor, donor, freelancer, giver, informant, informer, outworker, philanthropist, retailer, spokesperson.
- **ΠΟCTAЧAHHЯ** 1. provision; *synonyms* (*n*) arrangement, condition, clause, proviso, stock, article, board, requirement, stipulation, store, maintenance, (*ν*) preparation, feed, cater, supply; *antonym* (*n*) lack, 2. supply; *synonyms* (*n*) provision, hoard, issue, (*ν*) furnish, afford, fill, offer, provide, contribute, deliver, equip, give, outfit, produce, nourish, 3. allowance; *synonyms* (*n*) allotment, admission, discount, quota,

- tolerance, abatement, acknowledgment, adjustment, allocation, compensation, concession, deduction, fee, grant, indulgence.
- постачати 1. supply; synonyms (n) provision, hoard, (v) furnish, stock, afford, fill, store, feed, offer, provide, cater, contribute, deliver, equip, give, 2. provide; synonyms (v) accommodate, administer, supply, allow, fit, endow, outfit, nourish, nurture, arm, bestow, donate, ensure, extend, ply, 3. accommodate; synonyms (v) adapt, adjust, oblige, contain, fashion, hold, lodge, quarter, reconcile, harmonise, admit, conciliate, conform, gratify, (adi) suit; antonym (v) evict.
- постійний 1. constant; synonyms (adi) ceaseless. incessant, perpetual, steady, continual, abiding, changeless, consistent, continuous, eternal, faithful, frequent, loyal, resolute, (n) invariable; antonyms (adj) changeable, intermittent, irregular, sporadic, variable, episodic, erratic, inconstant, disloyal, fickle, inconsistent, occasional, temporary, unreliable, 2. permanent; synonyms (adj) durable, lasting, fixed, everlasting, fast, perennial, enduring, immutable, indelible, continuing, immortal, standing, (v) constant, firm, (n) perm; antonyms (adj) fleeting, brief, impermanent, provisional, transitory, fragile, superficial, 3. continual; synonyms (adj) endless, uninterrupted, permanent, persistent, unending, unrelenting, continued, nonstop, regular, repeated, unceasing, 4. uniform; synonyms (adj) even, equal, same, equable, homogenous, level, unchanging, set, stable, alike, flat, similar, (n) livery, dress, garb; antonyms (adi) varied, assorted, unequal, 5. stable; synonyms (adj) reliable, secure, stationary, hard, solid, sound, immovable, certain, immobile, responsible, safe, static, stout, tight, uniform; antonyms (adj) unstable, shaky, wobbly, dangerous, precarious, rickety, volatile, 6. steady; synonyms (adj) cool, sedate, settled, determined, smooth, staid, composed, staunch, dependable, (v) steadfast, calm, brace, quiet, stabilize, stanch; antonym (adj) unsteady, 7. standing; synonyms (v) stand, post, (n) rank, fame, importance, position, prestige, place, reputation, footing, attitude, class, (adj) erect, motionless, continuance, 8. settled: synonyms (adi) definite, decided, established. defined, formed, confirmed, finished, done, peaceful, assured, sober, stated, colonized, occupied, ordinary; antonym (adj) uninhabited.
- **постійність** consistency; *synonyms* (n) consistence, agreement, body, coherence, consonance, conformity, congruence, congruity, density, uniformity, accordance, concord, compatibility, consentaneousness, accord; *antonyms* (n) inconsistency, discrepancy.
- постійно 1. constantly; synonyms (adv) always, forever, perpetually, continually, ceaselessly, endlessly, eternally, ever, incessantly, persistently, steadily, truly, unremittingly; antonyms (adv) sporadically, inconsistently, 2. continuously; synonyms (adv) constantly, unceasingly; antonym (adv) intermittently, 3. always; synonyms (adv) continuously, whenever, consistently, e'er, everlastingly, evermore, hourly, (adj) still, eternal; antonyms (adv) never, erratically.

- **ПОСТІЛЬ** bed (ліжко); *synonyms* (n) couch, layer, base, basis, berth, bottom, flowerbed, foundation, crib, sack, rest, support, pallet, understructure, setting.
- **постник** faster; *synonyms* (*adv*) quicker, earlier, closer, nearer; *antonym* (*adv*) later.
- **ПОСТОЯЛЕЦЬ** guest; *synonyms* (*n*) stranger, caller, alien, customer, visitor, foreigner, client, visitant.
- **ПОСТРАЖДАТИ** suffer; *synonyms* (v) bear, encounter, abide, accept, brook, endure, experience, have, stand, undergo, permit, receive, smart, sustain, (adi) allow.
- постріл 1. pop; *synonyms* (n) dad, daddy, father, pa, papa, bang, shot, click, (v) burst, crack, shoot, protrude, pawn, appear, (adv) plump, 2. shot; *synonyms* (n) gunshot, injection, go, fling, ball, picture, attempt, bullet, chance, discharge, effort, endeavor, guess, jab, (adj) iridescent
- **HOCTYH** progress; *synonyms* (n) headway, improvement, furtherance, betterment, gain, course, advancement, development, growth, increase, (v) advance, proceed, continue, develop, go; *antonyms* (n) decline, deterioration, (v) regress.
- ПОСТУПАЛЬНИЙ progressive; synonyms (adj) advanced, forward, gradual, active, radical, consecutive, modern, revolutionary, positive, alphabetical, avantgarde, broad, broad-minded, (n) liberal, imperfect; antonyms (adj) old-fashioned, traditional, (n) conservative.
- TIOCTYΠΑΤΗCЯ 1. yield; synonyms (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; antonyms (v) resist, persevere, 2. comply; synonyms (v) agree, assent, acquiesce, consent, accommodate, conform, follow, accept, accord, defer, obey, observe, perform, yield, 3. admit (допускати); synonyms (v) acknowledge, affirm, confess, include, permit, take, appreciate, welcome, adjudge, avouch, avow, declare, hold, profess, receive; antonyms (v) deny, exclude, reject.
- **ΠΟCTYΠΚA** concession; *synonyms* (n) admission, compliance, allowance, compromise, discount, grant, agreement, charter, conceding, license, yielding, acceptance, acknowledgment, abatement, assent.
- **ПОСТУПЛИВІСТЬ** compliance; *synonyms* (n) agreement, approval, observance, accordance, acquiescence, complaisance, consent, obedience, accord, assent, compliancy, deference, submission, flexibility, yielding; *antonyms* (n) disobedience, stubbornness, nonconformity.
- поступовий 1. gradual; synonyms (adj) gentle, progressive, slow, deliberate, moderate, (adv. adj) piecemeal; antonyms (adj) sudden, dramatic, instant, unexpected, 2. progressive; synonyms (adj) advanced, forward, gradual, active, radical, consecutive, modern, revolutionary, positive, alphabetical, avant-garde, broad, broad-minded, (n) liberal, imperfect; antonyms (adj) old-fashioned, traditional, (n) conservative.
- поступово gradually; *synonyms* (*adv*) inchmeal, increasingly, progressively, slowly, inasmuch, unhurriedly, insensibly, edgingly, gingerly, hardly,

- imperceptibly, inaudibly, indiscernibly, invisibly, (adv, adj) piecemeal; antonyms (adv) suddenly, abruptly.
- **ПОСУВАТИ** move; *synonyms* (v) act, affect, carry, excite, go, impel, instigate, maneuver, touch, travel, flow, bear, (n) motion, drive, transfer; *antonym* (v) stay.
- посудина vessel; synonyms (n) ship, boat, container, craft, duct, jar, vas, bowl, canal, pan, receptacle, basin, tube, watercraft, bottle.
- **ΠΟCYXA** drought; *synonyms* (n) famine, parchedness, absence, dryness, lack, scarcity, thirst, drawing, (adj) aridity; *antonym* (n) wetness.
- **ПОСУШЛИВИЙ** dry; *synonyms* (*adj*) thirsty, arid, barren, boring, dehydrated, dull, bald, hoarse, jejune, plain, (*v*) dehydrate, desiccate, drain, uninteresting, sardonic; *antonyms* (*adj*) wet, damp, moist, saturated, soaked, boggy, drenched, rainy, sodden, interesting, fresh, humid, juicy, succulent, (*v*) drench.
- **ΠΟΤΒΟΡΑ** monster; *synonyms* (n) giant, beast, brute, demon, devil, fiend, freak, behemoth, colossus, monstrosity, ogre, prodigy, chimera, (adj) huge, stupendous.
- **потворний** ugly; *synonyms* (*adj*) nasty, disagreeable, forbidding, frightful, gruesome, hideous, homely, repulsive, surly, evil, offensive, atrocious, deformed, despicable, grotesque; *antonyms* (*adj*) beautiful, attractive, good-looking, flowing, ornamental.
- **потенціал** potential; *synonyms* (*adj*) likely, possible, prospective, latent, virtual, dormant, (*n*) capability, potency, ability, capacity, possibility, prospect, faculty, potentiality, power.
- **потенційний** potential; *synonyms* (*adj*) likely, possible, prospective, latent, virtual, dormant, (*n*) capability, potency, ability, capacity, possibility, prospect, faculty, potentiality, power.
- **ПОТЕРПІЛИЙ** injured; *synonyms* (*adj*) aggrieved, hurt, broken, wounded, affected, damaged, offended, pained, defective, insulted, abused, aching, ailing, angry, (n) casualty; *antonym* (*adj*) unharmed.
- **IDOTIK 1.** flow; *synonyms* (*n*) flood, current, discharge, abound, (*v*) stream, course, flux, jet, run, surge, float, emanate, fall, gush, pour, **2.** stream; *synonyms* (*n*) flow, brook, river, spurt, rush, streak, torrent, beam, spout, ray, (*v*) crowd, swarm, runnel, creek, deluge; *antonym* (*v*) trickle, **3.** flood; *synonyms* (*n*) downpour, cataclysm, alluvion, avalanche, barrage, (*v*) drench, inundate, glut, drown, flush, submerge, swamp, cascade, engulf, (*prep*) tide; *antonyms* (*n*) drought, shortage, **4.** tide; *synonyms* (*n*) drift, time, race, (*v*) wave, billow, noonday, **5.** river; *synonyms* (*n*) waterway, watercourse, (*v*) burn, bayou, beck, (*adj*) water.
- notim 1. then; synonyms (adv) so, accordingly, afterward, again, consequently, later, (conj) therefore, 2. next; synonyms (adj) nearest, adjacent, contiguous, following, subsequent, future, coming, ensuing, after, close, near, adjoining, posterior, closest, (adv) then; antonyms (adj) distant, outgoing, (adv) previous, preceding, previously, 3. after; synonyms (prep) since, (adv) beyond, next, subsequently, when, afterwards, behind, (adj) back, rear, 4. afterwards, 5. further; synonyms (adv) farther, also, moreover, (adj) extra, additional, more, another, (v)

- advance, encourage, forward, foster, accelerate, elevate, help, (n) promote; *antonym* (adj) less, **6**. subsequently.
- **HOTITH** SWeat; *synonyms* (*n*) labor, perspiration, lather, sudor, effort, struggle, drudgery, fret, labour, (*v*) work, perspire, toil, drudge, exude, ooze.
- **ПОТОВЩЕННЯ** node; *synonyms* (n) knob, connection, joint, knot, nodosity, nub, swelling, client, guest.
- **HOTOMCTBO** generation; *synonyms* (n) age, creation, epoch, era, genesis, contemporaries, formation, offspring, period, time, day, birth, family, lifetime, (v) germination.
- поточний 1. current; synonyms (adj) common, contemporary, fashionable, instant, actual, fresh, modern, new, popular, (n) flow, stream, run, afloat, movement, (prep) course; antonyms (adj) obsolete, past, old, old-fashioned, previous, 2. actual; synonyms (adj) real, absolute, true, factual, genuine, authentic, existent, indisputable, literal, positive, precise, tangible, veritable, very, (n) accurate; antonyms (adj) false, hypothetical, supposed, 3. operating; synonyms (n) operation, exploitation, farming, (adj) running, working, acting, functioning, operative, effective, active, employed, energetic, energical, engaged, loose.
- notpe6a 1. need; synonyms (v) lack, claim, require, destitution, indigence, involve, (n) demand, want, desire, deficiency, must, necessity, deprivation, requirement, absence; antonym (n) wealth, 2. want; synonyms (v) need, like, hope, crave, (n) poverty, wish, famine, dearth, penury, privation, shortage, pauperism, defect, distress, ambition; antonyms (v) dislike, hate, 3. requirement; synonyms (n) essential, obligation, prerequisite, provision, clause, condition, exigency, necessary, proviso, precondition, qualification, requisite, stipulation, command, duty; antonym (n) option, 4. necessity; synonyms (n) compulsion, emergency, constraint, occasion, needfulness, pinch, pressure, crisis, essentiality, fate, foredoom, (v) use, manner.
- **ПОТРЕБИ 1**. needs; *synonyms* (n) desires, requests, requirements, (adv) inevitably, necessarily, needfully, ineluctably, inescapably, unavoidably, **2**. need; *synonyms* (v) lack, claim, require, destitution, indigence, involve, (n) demand, want, desire, deficiency, must, necessity, deprivation, requirement, absence; *antonym* (n) wealth.
- потребувати 1. need; synonyms (v) lack, claim, require, destitution, indigence, involve, (n) demand, want, desire, deficiency, must, necessity, deprivation, requirement, absence; antonym (n) wealth, 2. require; synonyms (v) need, charge, crave, ask, exact, entail, call, command, compel, force, necessitate, request, enjoin, expect, oblige, 3. want; synonyms (v) like, hope, covet, (n) poverty, wish, famine, dearth, penury, privation, shortage, pauperism, defect, distress, ambition, fancy; antonyms (v) dislike, hate.
- по-третє thirdly; *synonyms* (*adv*) third, thrice.

  потрібний necessary; *synonyms* (*adj*) essential,
  compulsory, important, inevitable, basic, mandatory,
  fundamental, imperative, indispensable, main,
  obligatory, (*n*) requisite, necessity, demand, need;

- antonyms (adj) unnecessary, optional, surplus, needless, unjustified.
- **ΠΟΤΡΟΙΙΙИΤИ** gut; *synonyms* (n) belly, abdomen, bowel, catgut, (v) eviscerate, pillage, ransack, despoil, spoil, loot, sack, plunder, disembowel, ravage, (adj) internal
- **IIOTPЯCATИ** shake; *synonyms* (*v*) beat, agitate, jar, brandish, disturb, excite, flutter, totter, wag, (*n*) tremble, jolt, quiver, wave, trembling, (*adī*) quake.
- потрясіння shock; *synonyms* (n) blow, daze, impact, collision, outrage, surprise, concussion, (v) jar, offend, revolt, startle, appall, clash, disgust, dismay; *antonym* (v) comfort.
- **ПОТУЖНИЙ** powerful; *synonyms* (*adj*) cogent, able, brawny, forcible, hard, mighty, muscular, potent, strong, effective, energetic, influential, intense, lusty, vigorous; *antonyms* (*adj*) powerless, weak, mild.
- потужність 1. power; synonyms (n) force, ability, potency, authority, control, energy, agency, domination, intensity, strength, (v) influence, might, dominion, faculty, capacity; antonyms (n) powerlessness, helplessness, weakness, 2. energy; synonyms (n) animation, dash, life, spirit, determination, drive, effort, vigor, vitality, capability, action, activity, dynamism, go, impetus; antonyms (n) lethargy, apathy, exhaustion, tiredness, idleness, sluggishness, 3. output; synonyms (n) crop, harvest, turnout, yield, outturn, product, expenditure, (v) outcome.
- **HOTHF 1.** train; *synonyms* (*n*) chain, string, (*v*) aim, coach, direct, educate, exercise, trail, tail, tame, discipline, drill, instruct, prepare, school, **2.** affinity; *synonyms* (*n*) sympathy, analogy, alliance, bond, kindred, propinquity, rapport, relation, relationship, semblance, penchant, agreement, attachment, conformity, connection.
- пофарбований coloured; synonyms (adj) biased, black, colorful, dyed, blue, aslant, aslope, benighted, bleached, closed, dark, slanted, depressing, diagonal, disconsolate.
- HOXBAJA praise; synonyms (n) compliment, acclaim, applause, commendation, glory, kudos, admiration, (v) applaud, approve, commend, extol, honor, flatter, celebrate, glorify; antonyms (n) criticism, disparagement, (v) criticize, belittle, disparage, rebuke, reprimand, reproach, scold, chastise, denigrate, sully.
- **HOXBAJUTU** praise; *synonyms* (n) compliment, acclaim, applause, commendation, glory, kudos, admiration, (v) applaud, approve, commend, extol, honor, flatter, celebrate, glorify; *antonyms* (n) criticism, disparagement, (v) criticize, belittle, disparage, rebuke, reprimand, reproach, scold, chastise, denigrate, sully.
- **ПОХИЛЕНИЙ** bent; *synonyms* (*adj*) arched, curved, bended, crooked, deformed, intent, (*n*) aptitude, inclination, propensity, fancy, ability, bias, flair, gift, leaning; *antonym* (*adj*) straight.
- **ΠΟΧΗJΙΗЙ** prone; synonyms (adj) liable, apt, disposed, inclined, flat, predisposed, subject, likely, procumbent, prostrate, susceptible, supine, given, ready, exposed; antonym (adj) upright.
- **ПОХИЛІСТЬ** bias; *synonyms* (n) penchant, drift, influence, turn, twist, favor, slope, angle, bigotry, (v) prejudice, bent, slant, dispose, (adj) partiality, diagonal; *antonyms* (n) impartiality, neutrality, fairness.

- **ΠΟΧΙ** (campaign; *synonyms* (n) crusade, battle, expedition, movement, struggle, war, cause, drive, effort, (v) fight, course, canvass, run, advertize, agitate.
- ПОХМУРИЙ 1. grave; synonyms (adj) austere, critical, serious, severe, solemn, earnest, bad, dangerous, deep, grand, important, sad, sedate, (v) acute, engrave; antonyms (adj) mild, frivolous, funny, 2. bleak; synonyms (adj) bare, barren, cold, dreary, black, desolate, murky, raw, bald, bitter, dark, depressing, gloomy, grim, harsh; antonyms (adj) cheerful, hopeful, lush, sunny, 3. gloomy; synonyms (adj) cheerless, dejected, disconsolate, dismal, downcast, dim, dingy, downhearted, dull, funereal, melancholy, dispirited, bleak, blue, cloudy; antonyms (adj) bright, cheery, encouraging, happy, light, 4. dull; synonyms (adj) blunt, dense, sluggish, bland, boring, inactive, inert, obtuse, slack, slow, stupid, torpid, uninteresting, (v) deaden, dampen; antonyms (adj) lively, sharp, exciting, interesting, lustrous, stimulating, amusing, exhilarating, glittery, glossy, glowing, high-pitched, intense, luminous, shiny, 5. obscure; synonyms (adj) ambiguous, concealed, darken, hidden, incomprehensible, muddy, mysterious, clandestine, confused, (v) hide, blur, cloud, conceal, confuse, cover; antonyms (adj) clear, noticeable, simple, obvious, distinct, mainstream, (v) clarify.
- походження 1. origin (джерело); synonyms (n) cause, lineage, base, beginning, birth, descent, ancestry, commencement, derivation, extraction, foundation, fountain, inception, root, source; antonym (n) end, 2. birth; synonyms (n) genesis, parturition, blood, labor, nascency, nativity, onset, origin, parentage, start, birthing, dawn, (v) delivery, bear, deliver; antonym (n) death, 3. beginning; synonyms (n) begin, opening, debut, emergence, incipiency, initiation, introduction, kickoff, preface, threshold, top, (adj) original, first, incipient, fresh; antonyms (n) finish, finale, conclusion, demise, ending, 4. strain; synonyms (n) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (v) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; antonym (v) relax.
- **ΠΟΧΟДИТИ** derive; *synonyms* (*v*) deduce, stem, come, deduct, draw, result, conclude, descend, educe, elicit, evolve, extract, gain, get, infer.
- **похорон** 1. funeral; *synonyms* (*n*) burial, entombment, interment, pyre, wake, committal, (*adj*) funebrial, 2. burial; *synonyms* (*n*) sepulture, burying, funeral, inhumation.
- **похоронний** funeral (похорон); *synonyms* (n) burial, entombment, interment, pyre, wake, committal, (adj) funebrial.
- **ΠΟЦΙЈУВАТИ** kiss; *synonyms* (n) buss, brush, osculation, salute, touch, (v) caress, embrace, osculate, love.
- **поцілунок** kiss; *synonyms* (n) buss, brush, osculation, salute, touch, (v) caress, embrace, osculate, love.
- **ПОЧАСТИ** somewhat; *synonyms* (*adv*) rather, slightly, little, fairly, pretty, reasonably, moderately, quite, relatively, comparatively, middling, partially, (*pron*) partly, (*adj*) something, tolerably; *antonyms* (*adv*) extremely, considerably.

- **IIOUATU** start; *synonyms* (v) begin, originate, commence, drive, launch, embark, spring, activate, arise, (n) jump, onset, origin, shock, beginning, commencement; *antonyms* (v) end, finish, stop, conclude, halt, (n) conclusion.
- початковий 1. initial; synonyms (adj) beginning, first, elementary, incipient, foremost, preliminary, primary, rudimentary, commencing, early, introductory, leading, opening, original, (v) sign, 2. original; synonyms (adj) authentic, native, new, primitive, indigenous, aboriginal, creative, fresh, imaginative, inventive, primeval, primordial, (n) archetype, model, prototype; antonyms (adj) commonplace, banal, copied, corny, derivative, hackneyed, well-worn, conventional, resulting, unimaginative, (n) copy, counterfeit, fake, imitation, replica, 3. primary; synonyms (adj) chief, basic, essential, major, fundamental, initial, primal, basal, capital, central, dominant, key, (n) paramount, main, cardinal; antonym (adj) secondary, 4. prime; synonyms (adj) head, excellent, exquisite, overriding, premier, grand, (n) best, flower, bloom, blossom, cream, efflorescence, elite, (v) ground, coach; antonym (adj)
- **ΠΟΨΑΤΟΚ 1.** beginning; synonyms (n) cause, begin, birth, commencement, derivation, opening, origin, start, dawn, debut, emergence, foundation, genesis, (adi) original, first; antonyms (n) end, finish, finale, conclusion, demise, ending, 2. origin (джерело); synonyms (n) lineage, base, beginning, descent, ancestry, extraction, fountain, inception, root, source, well, head, cradle, fountainhead, mother, 3. breaking; synonyms (n) break, breach, breakage, violation, contravention, infringement; antonym (n) observance, 4. outset; synonyms (n) onset, threshold, kickoff, offset, entrance, 5. start; synonyms (v) originate, commence, drive, launch, embark, spring, activate, arise, enter, flinch, open, (n) jump, shock, leap, rise; antonyms (v) stop, conclude, halt, 6. starting; synonyms (n) outset, departure, advantage, startle, striking, (adj) initial, incipient, introductory, preliminary, early, preparatory, (prep) from, since, 7. onset; synonyms (n) incursion, charge, aggression, assault, inroad, onslaught, onrush. outbreak, invasion, offensive, foray, advent, attempt, raid, (v) attack, 8. morning; synonyms (n) daybreak, sunrise, daylight, forenoon, morn, aurora, cockcrow, dawning, dayspring, sunup; antonym (n) dusk, 9. source (джерело); synonyms (n) reason, parent, basis, germ, headspring, origination, reference, seed, reservoir, fount, generator, informant, principle, resource, author.
- **ΠΟΨΕΡΚ** 1. script; *synonyms* (*n*) calligraphy, hand, book, handwriting, copy, document, inscription, lettering, letters, text, treatment, writing, playscript, record, 2. writing; *synonyms* (*n*) script, composition, print, autograph, paper, authorship, journal, style, words, correspondence, penning, 3. handwriting; *synonyms* (*n*) chirography, ability.
- почесний 1. honourable; *synonyms* (*adj*) honest, estimable, honorable, good, ethical, moral, **2**. honorary; *synonyms* (*adj*) complimentary, unpaid, voluntary, unbought, honorarium, nominal, (*adv*) amateur.

- **ΠΟЧΕΤ** suite; *synonyms* (n) retinue, series, entourage, apartment, cortege, flat, train, court, battery, group, rooms, (adj) round, succession.
- починати 1. start; synonyms (v) begin, originate, commence, drive, launch, embark, spring, activate, arise, (n) jump, onset, origin, shock, beginning, commencement; antonyms (v) end, finish, stop, conclude, halt, (n) conclusion, 2. begin; synonyms (v) start, become, enter, initiate, rise, create, dawn, found, institute, introduce, open, undertake, build, happen, induce, 3. launch; synonyms (n) boat, inauguration, initiation, launching, introduction, (v) dart, fire, toss, establish, hurl, inaugurate, cast, fling, shoot, throw, 4. undertake; synonyms (v) attempt, try, accept, contract, covenant, guarantee, tackle, take, assume, assure, eneage, promise, endeavor, seek, do.
- **ΠΟЧИНАТИСЯ** start; *synonyms* (*v*) begin, originate, commence, drive, launch, embark, spring, activate, arise, (*n*) jump, onset, origin, shock, beginning, commencement; *antonyms* (*v*) end, finish, stop, conclude, halt, (*n*) conclusion.
- **ΠΟΥΗ**CTUTU clean; *synonyms* (*adj*) clear, fair, antiseptic, blank, pure, chaste, adroit, tidy, unblemished, (*v*) brush, cleanse, bathe, clarify, disinfect, sweep; *antonyms* (*adj*) filthy, unclean, muddy, unhygienic, full, syrupy, tainted, unwholesome, (*v*) dirty, soil, contaminate, pollute.
- **ΠΟϤ**УΒΑΤ*I*I feel; *synonyms* (*v*) experience, sense, consider, finger, handle, believe, deem, endure, find, (*n*) touch, atmosphere, feeling, sound, texture, air; *antonym* (*v*) observe.
- почути 1. hear; *synonyms* (v) attend, discover, apprehend, understand, catch, examine, learn, listen, overhear, see, try, find, get, comprehend, gather, 2. understand; *synonyms* (v) interpret, recognize, hear, realize, appreciate, assume, believe, construe, deduce, grasp, perceive, read, translate, discern, (*adj*) take; *antonyms* (v) misinterpret, misconstrue, misunderstand.
- **HOHYTTH 1.** sentiment; *synonyms* (*n*) idea, emotion, feeling, mind, notion, judgement, judgment, opinion, persuasion, sense, attitude, impression, affection, belief, position, **2.** heart (ceptue); *synonyms* (*n*) core, center, spirit, basis, bosom, breast, courage, crux, essence, hub, kernel, marrow, middle, pluck, (*adj*) gist; *antonym* (*n*) edge, **3.** pulse; *synonyms* (*n*) beat, impulse, pulsation, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, pounding, cadence, measure, pulsing, (*v*) pulsate, throb, palpitate, pound, vibrate, **4.** sense; *synonyms* (*n*) intelligence, perception, meaning, sensation, logic, awareness, experience, reason, understanding, purport, (*v*) feel, intellect, perceive, scent, detect; *antonyms* (*n*) garbage, ludicrousness, nonsense, stupidity, foolishness, gibberish.
- **ΠΟΙΙΙΑΗΑ** respect (ποβαжατη); *synonyms* (n) honor, esteem, homage, worship, heed, notice, account, consideration, deference, (ν) regard, observe, admire, appreciate, estimation, keep; *antonyms* (n) cheek, insolence, impudence, (ν) disrespect, scorn, despise, dishonor, disregard, humiliate.
- **поширений 1**. prevalent; *synonyms* (*adj*) common, general, predominant, popular, rife, extensive, ascendant, dominant, epidemic, pervasive, ruling,

- widespread, chief, (n) current, (v) prevailing; antonym (adj) minor, 2. common; synonyms (adj) ordinary, coarse, cheap, mutual, usual, vulgar, accustomed, base, ignoble, mean, mediocre, plebeian, public, trivial, (n) habitual; antonyms (adj) individual, uncommon, rare, unusual, characteristic, one-off, specific, unique, aristocratic, exclusive, extraordinary, infrequent, 3. prevailing; synonyms (adj) prevalent, overriding, influential, powerful, customary, regular, preponderant, conventional, main, governing, principal, superior, controlling, overruling, preponderating.
- ПОШИРЕННЯ 1. distribution; synonyms (n) diffusion, dispensation, delivery, deal, allotment, apportionment, arrangement, dispersion, disposition, assignment, dispersal, disposal, division, (v) dissemination, dissipation; antonym (n) concentration, 2. circulation; synonyms (n) distribution, currency, gyration, revolution, rotation, round, spread, spreading, turn, airing, 3. spread; synonyms (v) scatter, reach, disperse, expand, extend, broadcast, circulate, diffuse, disseminate, increase, propagate, stretch, broaden, deploy, (n) span; antonym (adj) concentrated, 4. prevalence; synonyms (n) preponderance, domination, advantage, ascendency, ascendancy, frequency, predominance, superiority, excellence, sway, popularity, vogue, commonness, pressure, 5. occurrence; synonyms (n) case, event, occasion, accident, instance. affair, circumstance, contingency, episode, experience, fact, happening, adventure, eventuality, (v) incident, 6. proliferation; synonyms (n) growth, propagation, reproduction, upsurge, breeding, escalation, extent, rise, intensification, procreation, transmission, 7. spreading; synonyms (adj) scattering, diffusing, contagious, diffusive, dispersive, disseminating, disseminative, distributive, (n) circulation, extension.
- поширювати 1. extend; synonyms (v) expand, enlarge, amplify, broaden, dilate, widen, augment, continue, elongate, go, spread, carry, develop, increase, (adj) stretch; antonyms (v) withdraw, shorten, limit, narrow, shrink, 2. expand; synonyms (v) balloon, distend, aggrandize, extend, inflate, swell, explicate, bloat, elaborate, grow, open, rise, unfold, advance, (adj) expatiate; antonyms (v) contract, abbreviate, decrease, deflate, reduce, summarize, 3. spread; synonyms (v) scatter, reach, disperse, broadcast, circulate, diffuse, disseminate, propagate, deploy, distribute, (n) span, dissemination, expanse, expansion, feast; antonym (adj) concentrated, 4. shed; synonyms (v) cast, discard, drop, moult, exuviate, molt, dismiss, disgorge, emit, fling, (n) hut, shack, cabin, booth, hovel.
- поширюватися 1. expand; synonyms (v) amplify, enlarge, balloon, broaden, develop, distend, aggrandize, augment, extend, inflate, swell, explicate, bloat, elaborate, (adj) dilate; antonyms (v) contract, shorten, abbreviate, decrease, deflate, reduce, shrink, summarize, narrow, 2. spread; synonyms (v) scatter, reach, disperse, expand, broadcast, circulate, diffuse, disseminate, increase, propagate, stretch, deploy, distribute, (n) span, dissemination; antonym (adj) concentrated.

- ПОШКОДЖЕНИЙ faulty; synonyms (adj) erroneous, deficient, defective, false, vicious, bad, broken, inaccurate, incorrect, wrong, damaged, imperfect, poor, amiss, tainted; antonyms (adj) correct, perfect, flawless.
- ПОШКОДЖЕННЯ 1. damage; synonyms (n) blemish, injury, wound, loss, cost, detriment, disadvantage, impairment, (v) harm, hurt, abuse, injure, afflict, disfigure, (adj) impair; antonyms (n) service, (v) conserve, enhance, repair, bolster, 2. disturbance; synonyms (n) agitation, commotion, disorder, turmoil, brawl, derangement, dislocation, disruption, tumult, upset, din, affray, annoyance, bother, (adj) trouble, 3. injury; synonyms (n) disservice, grievance, damage, ill, bruise, affront, contusion, evil, lesion, wrong, concussion, mischief, outrage, strain, indignity; antonyms (n) ability, reparation, 4. hurt; synonyms (v) pain, ail, anguish, cut, grieve, offend, sting, burn, break, (adj) damaged, endamage, (n) ache, distress, agony, discomfort; antonyms (v) encourage, (adj) uninjured, unhurt.
- **пошкоджувати** damage; *synonyms* (*n*) blemish, injury, wound, loss, cost, detriment, disadvantage, impairment, (*v*) harm, hurt, abuse, injure, afflict, disfigure, (*adj*) impair; *antonyms* (*n*) service, (*v*) conserve, enhance, repair, bolster.
- **пошта 1.** post; *synonyms* (*n*) place, function, office, position, pillar, stake, attitude, berth, column, job, (*v*) mail, locate, base, enter, lay, **2**. mail; *synonyms* (*n*) armor, communication, correspondence, (*v*) post, send, remit, habergeon, shield, transmit, direct, dispatch.
- поштовх 1. impetus; synonyms (n) impulse, drive, force, impulsion, power, goad, incentive, momentum, spur, stimulus, thrust, urge, motivation, propulsion, (v) energy, 2. thrust; synonyms (v) jab, boost, punch, ram, dig, impel, squeeze, throw, stick, (n) push, poke, stab, shove, cast, prod; antonym (v) pull, 3. push; synonyms (n) press, jolt, elbow, (v) crowd, jostle, nudge, jam, rush, fight, incite, jog, labor, plug, pressure, promote; antonyms (v) drag, haul, 4. shock; synonyms (n) blow, daze, impact, collision, outrage, surprise, concussion, (v) jar, offend, revolt, startle, appall, clash, disgust, dismay; antonym (v) comfort, 5. impulse; synonyms (n) impetus, pulse, motive, whim, desire, incitement, caprice, fillip, need, undulation, beat, drift, inspiration, inducement, instinct, 6. hit; synonyms (v) strike, attain, belt, bump, collide, encounter, club, (n) knock, bang, smash, touch, chance, bash, play, clout; antonyms (n) failure, flop, 7. kick; synonyms (n) beef, bitch, gripe, thrill, charge, excitement, flush, hit, (v) boot, grumble, recoil, spurn, protest, complain, whine, 8. shake; synonyms (v) agitate, brandish, disturb, excite, flutter, totter, wag, drop, convulse, flourish, (n) tremble, quiver, wave, trembling, (adj) quake.
- **HOHIYK 1.** hunting; *synonyms* (*n*) hunt, chase, pursuit, search, cycling, lagging, lookup, pumping, (*v*) battue, race, (*adj*) predatory, **2.** searching; *synonyms* (*v*) cutting, excruciating, consuming, corroding, (*adj*) piercing, inquisitive, probing, acute, curious, inquiring, profound, exploratory, penetrating, trenchant, explorative, **3.** search; *synonyms* (*n*) examination, exploration, inquire, inquiry, inspection, study, hunting,

- (v) grope, ransack, rummage, pry, examine, explore, forage, inspect.
- поява 1. appearance; *synonyms* (*n*) air, face, look, semblance, shape, show, advent, apparition, form, image, impression, manner, surface, view, appear; *antonyms* (*n*) disappearance, departure, vanishing, 2. emergence; *synonyms* (*n*) appearance, egress, beginning, development, emersion, birth, issue, origin, egression, outgrowth.
- **ΠΟЯВЛЯТИСЯ** appear; *synonyms* (v) occur, rise, seem, sound, emerge, show, break, arise, arrive, begin, feel, happen, look, surface, (n) come; *antonyms* (v) disappear, vanish.
- **ΠΟΘΙC** 1. belt; *synonyms* (n) ribbon, area, strap, knock, strip, zone, bang, (v) band, hit, wallop, whack, beat, smash, whip, thrash, 2. zone; *synonyms* (n) district, region, section, belt, locality, quarter, realm, layer, territory, province, neighborhood, orbit, circuit, division, bed.
- пояснення 1. explanation; synonyms (n) account, annotation, commentary, definition, description, exposition, excuse, gloss, interpretation, justification, solution, key, answer, caption, apology; antonym (n) mystery, 2. illustration; synonyms (n) example, case, chart, depiction, exemplification, figure, instance, demonstration, drawing, explanation, image, model, picture, sample, exemplar, 3. reason; synonyms (n) mind, intellect, occasion, argument, object, purpose, rationality, understanding, basis, (v) cause, argue, debate, conclude, deduce, discuss.
- **ΠΟЯСНИТИ** explain; *synonyms* (*v*) comment, elucidate, interpret, account, clarify, decipher, define, describe, enlighten, excuse, explicate, expound, gloss, solve, denote; *antonym* (*v*) confuse.
- **пояснювальний** explanatory; *synonyms* (*adj*) interpretative, expository, explicative, declarative, justifying, declaratory, demonstrative, exegetical, adminicular, analytical, apologetic, assertive, auxiliary, constructive, corroborative.
- **ΠΟΘΙCHIOBATU** 1. explain; *synonyms* (*v*) comment, elucidate, interpret, account, clarify, decipher, define, describe, enlighten, excuse, explicate, expound, gloss, solve, denote; *antonym* (*v*) confuse, 2. illustrate; *synonyms* (*v*) explain, demonstrate, depict, adorn, cite, decorate, embellish, represent, show, illuminate, ornament, embody, indicate, instance, (*adj*) exemplify, 3. interpret; *synonyms* (*v*) construe, illustrate, read, understand, render, consider, take, translate, annotate, clear, restate, fathom, imagine, comprehend, decode.
- **ΠΟЯСОК** band; *synonyms* (*n*) cluster, party, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, (*v*) ring, combine.
- правда truth; synonyms (n) exactness, reality, actuality, sincerity, correctness, fact, fidelity, verity, genuineness, accuracy, certainty, faithfulness, honesty, precision, authenticity; antonyms (n) untruth, dishonesty, fabrication, falsehood, fiction, lie.
- правдивий 1. honest; *synonyms* (*adj*) fair, genuine, equitable, good, sincere, artless, candid, clean, decent, dependable, faithful, forthright, frank, guileless, heartfelt; *antonyms* (*adj*) dishonest, corrupt, guarded, lying, misleading, disloyal, unwholesome, 2. true;

- synonyms (adj) real, actual, right, even, accurate, authentic, correct, exact, honest, straight, truthful, direct, factual, literal, (v) square; antonyms (adj) false, bogus, inaccurate. untrue.
- правдивість 1. honesty; synonyms (n) candor, fairness, integrity, justice, candidness, equity, frankness, probity, chastity, decency, faith, honestness, morality, rectitude, (adj) fidelity; antonyms (n) dishonesty, deceit, deception, deviousness, treachery, wickedness, 2. truth; synonyms (n) exactness, reality, actuality, sincerity, correctness, fact, verity, genuineness, accuracy, certainty, faithfulness, honesty, precision, authenticity, trueness; antonyms (n) untruth, fabrication, falsehood, fiction, lie.
- IIPAB/IUBO 1. honestly; synonyms (adv) frankly, fairly, candidly, directly, justly, sincerely, truly, faithfully, aboveboard, genuinely, openly, fair, bluntly, plainly, (adj) earnestly; antonyms (adv) dishonestly, deceitfully, misleadingly, 2. true; synonyms (adj) real, actual, faithful, right, even, accurate, authentic, correct, exact, honest, straight, truthful, direct, (v) square, (n) genuine; antonyms (adj) false, bogus, inaccurate, untrue, 3. truly; synonyms (adv) actually, really, exactly, indeed, certainly, honestly, precisely, very, legitimately, correctly, loyally, absolutely, truthfully, authentically, awfully; antonym (adv) falsely.
- правдоподібний 1. plausible; synonyms (adj) believable, credible, convincing, likely, specious, acceptable, feasible, probable, reasonable, imaginable, ostensible, oily, potential, slick, trustworthy; antonyms (adj) implausible, unlikely, unbelievable, 2. probable; synonyms (adj) plausible, possible, hopeful, conceivable, presumptive, verisimilar, apparent; antonym (adj) improbable.
- **ПРАВДОПОДІБНІСТЬ** probability; *synonyms* (n) chance, likelihood, odds, possibility, likeliness, opportunity, expectation, eventuality, prospect, contingency, expectancy, danger, outlook, chances, verisimilitude.
- правий right; synonyms (adj) correct, appropriate, due, just, proper, decent, good, even, perfect, accurate, exact, fair, faithful, fit, (n) privilege; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, unjustified, immoral, incorrect, (n) left, (v) wrong.
- **правила 1**. rule; *synonyms* (*n*) govern, order, decree, dominion, law, ordinance, principle, regulate, reign, authority, dictate, (*v*) command, control, influence, direct, **2**. law; *synonyms* (*n*) rule, canon, act, edict, regulation, enactment, jurisprudence, justice, police, ruling, axiom, directive, liberty, measure, prescription.
- правило 1. rule; *synonyms* (*n*) govern, order, decree, dominion, law, ordinance, principle, regulate, reign, authority, dictate, (*v*) command, control, influence, direct, 2. canon; *synonyms* (*n*) rule, doctrine, regulation, code, criterion, formula, statute, creed, prebendary, 3. law; *synonyms* (*n*) canon, act, edict, enactment, jurisprudence, justice, police, ruling, axiom, directive, liberty, measure, prescription, tenet, constabulary, 4. norm; *synonyms* (*n*) average, mean, mode, model, median, gauge, par, pattern.
- **правильний 1**. accurate; *synonyms* (*adj*) exact, precise, correct, faithful, true, authentic, close, detailed, literal,

- meticulous, nice, right, strict, truthful, scientific; antonyms (adj) inaccurate, false, wrong, 2. correct (виправляти); synonyms (adj) accurate, appropriate, becoming, proper, apt, (v) adjust, amend, castigate, chastise, chasten, better, remedy, straighten, atone, check; antonyms (adj) incorrect, faulty, inappropriate, mistaken, improper, (v) spoil, 3. true; synonyms (adj) real, actual, even, honest, straight, direct, sincere, factual, loyal, reliable, veritable, just, rightful, (v) square, (n) genuine; antonyms (adj) bogus, untrue, 4. right; synonyms (adj) due, decent, good, perfect, fair, fit, reasonable, equitable, (adv) correctly, (n) privilege, law, liberty, authority, claim, (v) rectify; antonyms (adj) unjustified, immoral, (n) left, 5. regular; synonyms (adj) normal, orderly, steady, common, customary, general, methodical, ordinary, formal, habitual, (n) fixed, constant, firm, familiar, (v) conventional; antonyms (adj) irregular, erratic, inconsistent, unusual, variable, asymmetrical, extraordinary, 6. straight; synonyms (adv) level, directly, frankly, immediately, openly, (adj) erect, flat, upright, perpendicular, immediate, consecutive, frank, neat, vertical, firsthand; antonyms (adv) indirectly, (adj) curly, curved, diluted, winding, zigzag, askew, bent, curvy, knotted, twisted, twisting, wavy, circuitous, guarded, 7. proper; synonyms (adj) agreeable, befitting, decorous, fitting, legitimate, modest, suitable, individual, meet, moral, peculiar, seemly, valid, expedient, convenient; antonyms (adi) unseemly, rude.
- правильність 1. accuracy; synonyms (n) fidelity, precision, truth, exactitude, exactness, reliability, care, closeness, correctness, faithfulness, meticulousness, veracity; antonyms (n) inaccuracy, vagueness, imprecision, 2. right; synonyms (adj) correct, appropriate, due, just, proper, decent, good, even, perfect, accurate, exact, fair, faithful, fit, (n) privilege; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, unjustified, immoral, incorrect, (n) left, (v) wrong.
- правильно 1. rightly; synonyms (adv) correctly, accurately, rightfully, appropriately, properly, right, fairly, justifiably, truly, fitly, justifiedly, (v) justly, well; antonyms (adv) wrongly, inappropriately, 2. duly; synonyms (adv) punctually, accordingly, equitably, lawfully, legally, orderly, befittingly, decorously, methodically, strictly, technically; antonym (adv) unduly, 3. correctly; synonyms (adv) aright, exactly, duly, precisely, rightly, suitably, actually, specifically; antonyms (adv) incorrectly, wrong, 4. properly; synonyms (adv) neatly, decently, decent, fittingly, aptly. becomingly, respectably, 5, right; synonyms (adi) correct, appropriate, due, just, proper, good, even, perfect, accurate, exact, fair, faithful, fit, (n) privilege, law; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, unjustified, immoral, incorrect, (n) left.
- правитель 1. governor; synonyms (n) director, chief, manager, regulator, administrator, controller, ruler, superintendent, leader, executive, head, master, official, protector, warden, 2. ruler; synonyms (n) governor, monarch, dynast, prince, sheik, sovereign, government, regulation, (adj) rule, regent, 3. prince; synonyms (n) potentate, duke, king, magnate.

- IIPABUTH direct; synonyms (adj) straight, blunt, immediate, (v) aim, channel, conduct, address, charge, control, dictate, head, administer, guide, lead, (n) command; antonyms (adj) indirect, roundabout, circuitous, oblique, second-hand, sideways, unplanned, (v) request.
- **ПРАВЛЯЧИЙ 1.** governing; *synonyms* (*adj*) dominant, leading, ruling, ascendant, chief, predominant, prevailing, executive, (*n*) governance, administration, government, **2.** ruling; *synonyms* (*adj*) regnant, reigning, prevalent, (*n*) judgment, rule, decision, decree, edict, act, directive, judgement, law, opinion, pronouncement, verdict.
- IIPABHUK 1. attorney; synonyms (n) advocate, lawyer, agent, counsel, counselor, factor, solicitor, representative, auctioneer, underwriter, advisor, bailiff, clerk, go-between, investigator, 2. lawyer; synonyms (n) attorney, leguleian, beagle, brief, defender, fixer, mouthpiece, pettifogger, proctor, shyster.
- IIPaBo 1. law; synonyms (n) rule, canon, decree, act, edict, regulation, enactment, jurisprudence, justice, order, police, principle, ruling, axiom, directive, 2. right; synonyms (adj) correct, appropriate, due, just, proper, decent, good, even, perfect, accurate, exact, fair, faithful, fit, (n) privilege; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, unjustified, immoral, incorrect, (n) left, (v) wrong, 3. power; synonyms (n) force, ability, potency, authority, control, energy, agency, domination, intensity, strength, (v) influence, might, dominion, faculty, capacity; antonyms (n) powerlessness, helplessness, weakness.
- ПРАВОВИЙ legal; synonyms (adj) lawful, sound, valid, juridical, constitutional, judicial, permissible, rightful, true, correct, sanctioned, official, (v) allowable, legitimate, licit; antonyms (adj) illegal, unlawful, bogus.
- **ΠΡΑΒΟΒΙΡΗΙΜ΄** orthodox; synonyms (adj) canonical, conventional, accepted, sound, faithful, conservative, customary, devout, legitimate, regular, proper, right, traditional, usual, honest; antonyms (adj) unconventional, unorthodox.
- **IIPABO3\_JATHICT6** ability; synonyms (n) hand, aptitude, capacity, cleverness, dexterity, faculty, power, talent, accomplishment, bent, capability, competency, expertise, flair, genius; antonyms (n) inability, injury.
- ПРАВОМОЧНИЙ competent; synonyms (adj) able, capable, adequate, clever, effective, efficient, fit, sufficient, commensurate, accomplished, adept, appropriate, enough, experienced, good; antonyms (adj) incompetent, useless, inept.
- **IIPABOMOUHICTЬ 1.** warrant; *synonyms* (n) guarantee, authority, vouch, authorization, security, certificate, commission, (v) permit, license, assure, justify, sanction, ensure, authorize, empower, **2**. competence; *synonyms* (n) capacity, adequacy, ability, capability, efficiency, sufficiency, aptitude, expertise, fitness, skill, talent, competency, craft, dexterity, (adj) proficiency; antonyms (n) incompetence, inability.
- правопис spelling; synonym (n) orthography.
- **IIPABOIIOPYIIIEHHЯ** wrong; *synonyms* (*adj*) harm, evil, false, ill, improper, bad, inappropriate, incorrect, abuse, criminal, (*n*) damage, injure, injury, injustice,

- crime; *antonyms* (*adj*) correct, good, proper, honest, lawabiding, (*adv*) correctly, (*v*) right, (*n*) justice.
- **ΠΡΑΒΟΠΟΡУШΗΜΚ** offender; *synonyms* (n) culprit, criminal, delinquent, malefactor, convict, crook, felon, wrongdoer, villain, reprobate.
- **ПРАВОСВІДОМІСТЬ** awareness; *synonyms* (*n*) consciousness, appreciation, knowledge, perception, sensation, sense, understanding, feeling, acquaintance, cognizance, conception, mind, notice, recognition, sensibility; *antonym* (*n*) ignorance.
- православний orthodox; synonyms (adj) canonical, conventional, accepted, sound, faithful, conservative, customary, devout, legitimate, regular, proper, right, traditional, usual, honest; antonyms (adj) unconventional, unorthodox.
- **ПРАВОСУДДЯ** justice; *synonyms* (*n*) equity, fairness, impartiality, integrity, judge, right, judicature, jurist, justness, morality, correctness, court, (*adj*) honesty, just, principle; *antonyms* (*n*) injustice, unfairness.
- прагматичний pragmatic; synonyms (adj) practical, hardheaded, realistic, useful, functional, pragmatical, sensible, empirical, helpful.
- прагнення 1. desire; *synonyms* (n) ambition, hope, aspiration, will, wish, craving, dream, impulse, (v) fancy, aspire, seek, want, aim, choose, crave; *antonyms* (n) aversion, reality, (v) dislike, hate, 2. ambition; *synonyms* (n) ambitiousness, drive, goal, objective, purpose, target, intention, design, desire, eagerness, longing, object; *antonym* (n) apathy.
- IIPATHYTH 1. aim; synonyms (n) intent, objective, plan, target, design, intention, meaning, (v) purpose, direct, object, point, address, endeavor, aspire, propose, 2. long; synonyms (adj) extended, lengthy, dragging, far, oblong, (v) desire, hanker, languish, yearn, ache, hunger, wish, crave, (n) extensive, large; antonyms (adj) short, brief.
- практика practice; *synonyms* (*n*) exercise, fashion, convention, discipline, experience, habit, form, observance, application, employment, (*v*) custom, drill, use, act, apply; *antonym* (*n*) performance.
- **ΠΡΑΚΤИΚУΒΑΤИСЯ** practise; *synonyms* (v) apply, do, drill, execute, exercise, perform, practice, rehearse, act, exert, answer, arrange, behave, bore, cause.
- практичний 1. practical; synonyms (adj) operative, practicable, efficient, feasible, functional, pragmatic, realistic, helpful, active, expedient, handy, positive, sensible, useful, workable; antonyms (adj) impractical, theoretical, unrealistic, useless, impossible, 2. economic; synonyms (adj) commercial, financial, profitable, economical, fiscal, industrial, mercantile, pecuniary, trade, monetary, bread-and-butter, budgetary, material, money-making, profit-making, 3. pragmatic; synonyms (adj) practical, hardheaded, pragmatical, empirical.
- практично practically; synonyms (adv) almost, nearly, virtually, about, much, hardly, usefully, conveniently, (adj) near; antonyms (adv) theoretically, unrealistically.
- **пральня** laundry; *synonyms* (*n*) washhouse, wash, washing, dairy, airstream, backwash, washables, laundering, lavation, race, slipstream, (*v*) lavatory.

- **IIPAHHЯ** washing; *synonyms* (n) laundry, wash, laundering, lavation, cleaning, purification, airstream, backwash, bucking, race, slipstream, washables, (*adj*) cleansing, clysmic.
- πραπορ 1. flag; synonyms (n) banner, colors, ensign, sign, fall, iris, (v) decline, languish, sag, abate, signal, (adj) droop, fade, drop, fail, 2. banner; synonyms (n) flag, title, bunting, emblem, headline, pennant, pennon, streamer
- **ΠΡΑΠΟΡΟΗΟ**CEЦ**b** ancient; *synonyms* (*adj*) aged, old, antiquated, obsolete, former, past, antique, archaic, bygone, hoary, primitive, olden, antediluvian, dated, (*n*) elder; *antonym* (*adj*) modern.
- праска iron (залізо, прасувати); synonyms (n) chain, irons, chains, (v) firm, flatten, press, smooth, (adj) hard, adamant, inflexible, steel, tenacious.
- прасувати 1. iron (залізо); synonyms (n) chain, irons, chains, (v) firm, flatten, press, smooth, (adj) hard, adamant, inflexible, steel, tenacious, 2. press; synonyms (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- **πρατu** wash; *synonyms* (ν) rinse, paint, bathe, clean, lave, moisten, mop, scour, scrub, color, tint, lap, (n) soak, ablution, washing; *antonym* (ν) dirty.
- **ПРАХ** clay (глина); *synonyms* (n) soil, remains, pottery, dirt, dust, loam, mud, ashes, cadaver, (*adj*) earthen.
- працездатність efficiency; synonyms (n) capability, effectiveness, ability, efficacy, effect, capacity, aptitude, energy, output, potency, proficiency, ease, (v) agency, action; antonyms (n) inefficiency, incompetence, largeness.
- IIPAIII proceedings; synonyms (n) action, lawsuit, minutes, dealings, proceeding, prosecution, record, transactions, case, suit.
- працівник 1. worker; synonyms (n) employee, hand, proletarian, workman, actor, doer, drudge, help, operator, practitioner, prole, 2. jack; synonyms (n) knave, flag, jackass, mariner, ace, burgee, jackfruit.
- **ΠΡΑΙΙΑΟΒИΤΙCTЬ** industry; *synonyms* (n) business, application, diligence, effort, industriousness, labor, toil, trade, work, assiduousness, exertion, manufacture, commerce.
- πραιμοβατи 1. work (ροδοτα); synonyms (n) exercise, business, employment, function, task, action, act, book, composition, (ν) labor, operate, toil, cultivate, (adf) job, trade; antonyms (ν) idle, malfunction, 2. go; synonyms (ν) come, elapse, pass, break, crack, depart, disappear, drive, run, travel, fall, extend, (n) fare, (adf) follow, move, 3. labour; synonyms (n) effort, exertion, childbed, confinement, proletariat, (ν) grind, travail, drudge, fag, fatigue, moil, push, tug, dig, 4. operate; synonyms (ν) direct, employ, go, handle, manage, perform, proceed, work, maneuver, fly, behave, control, do, engage, form.
- **ПРАЦЮЮЧИЙ** operational; *synonyms* (*adj*) operative, operating, functional, operable, effective, usable, working, available, functioning, prepared, ready, set, useable, going, outfitted.
- **праця 1**. work (робота); *synonyms* (*n*) exercise, business, employment, function, task, action, act, book,

- composition, (v) labor, operate, toil, cultivate, (adj) job, trade; antonyms (v) idle, malfunction, 2. job; synonyms (n) chore, position, work, assignment, career, duty, matter, occupation, post, concern, line, mission, office, profession, stint, 3. labour; synonyms (n) effort, exertion, childbed, confinement, proletariat, (v) grind, travail, drive, drudge, fag, fatigue, moil, push, tug, dig, 4. employment; synonyms (n) use, engagement, service, exploitation, avocation, berth, utilization, appointment, consumption, (v) application, employ, calling, affair, dealing, (adj) occupational; antonym (n) unemployment.
- ПРЕВАЛЮЮЧИЙ prevailing; synonyms (adj) predominant, dominant, prevalent, rife, common, current, overriding, general, popular, epidemic, influential, powerful, usual, customary, ordinary; antonym (adj) minor.
- предмет 1. subject; synonyms (n) matter, citizen, affair, dependent, inferior, issue, motif, question, point, area, content, discipline, field, (adj) liable, exposed; antonym (adj) liberated, 2. body (тіло); synonyms (n) cadaver, corpse, organization, carcass, cluster, consistency, figure, mass, set, aggregate, association, entity, amount, bulk, company; antonym (n) spirit, 3. article (стаття); synonyms (n) section, object, thing, chapter, clause, commodity, composition, discourse, essay, feature, paper, report, review, story, ware, 4. object; synonyms (n) design, aim, cause, end, intent, intention, meaning, mark, subject, substance, drift, (v) except, mind, complain, demur; antonym (v) agree, 5. topic; synonyms (n) theme, text, business, idea.
- ΠΡΕДΟΚ 1. grandfather (дід); synonyms (n) gramps, grandad, granddad, grandpa, grandpapa, grandsire, granddaddy, patriarch, 2. predecessor; synonyms (n) precursor, forerunner, ancestor, antecedent, antecessor, father, elder, precedent; antonyms (n) successor, descendant, 3. parent; synonyms (n) mother, origin, source, forefather, prototype, (v) foster, rear, nurture, generate, advance, advert, arouse, boot, cite, conjure; antonym (n) child.
- представити present; synonyms (adj) grant, confer, (n) gift, donation, (v) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (adv) absent.
- **IIPE***A***CTAB***A***EHHS** presentation; *synonyms* (*n*) donation, exhibition, demonstration, display, introduction, performance, offer, appearance, exposition, gift, exposure, induction, intro, overture, presentment.
- представляти 1. represent; synonyms (v) depict, portray, act, be, describe, embody, exemplify, illustrate, play, enact, make, impersonate, comprise, constitute, (adj) express, 2. present; synonyms (adj) grant, confer, (n) gift, donation, (v) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (adv) absent, 3. recommend; synonyms (v) advise, advocate, counsel, propose, commend, suggest, move, praise, urge, endorse, promote, approve, exhort, nominate, persuade, 4. introduce; synonyms (v) insert, interject, inject, acquaint, advance, enter, exhibit,

- implant, inaugurate, infuse, initiate, precede, present, instill, interpose; *antonym* (*v*) end.
- представник 1. deputy; synonyms (n) agent, surrogate, alternate, delegate, substitute, ambassador, assistant, replacement, representative, vicar, spokesman, envoy, help, (adj) proxy, acting, 2. spokesman; synonyms (n) orator, mouthpiece, speaker, interpreter, exponent, proponent, advocate, chairman, foreteller, lecturer, mantis, narrator, predicter, presenter, prophet, 3. representative; synonyms (adj) characteristic, typical, model, figurative, illustrative, (n) deputy, emissary, instance, member, congressman, example, legate, officer, official, (v) represent, 4. ambassador (посол); synonyms (n) messenger, minister, embassador, herald, diplomat, 5. agent; synonyms (n) agency, broker, medium, factor, instrument, mediator, attorney, channel, doer, intermediary, means, procurator, spy, operator, (v)
- **ПРЕДСТАВНИЦТВО 1.** agency; *synonyms* (*n*) bureau, office, authority, commission, expedient, factor, instrument, means, organ, way, efficiency, activity, board, (*v*) action, act, **2.** representation; *synonyms* (*n*) image, performance, depiction, picture, presentation, effigy, diagram, portrait, model, copy, description, emblem, illustration, likeness, appearance.
- **представницький** representative; *synonyms* (*adj*) characteristic, typical, model, (*n*) agent, delegate, deputy, envoy, proxy, ambassador, emissary, instance, member, substitute, congressman, (*v*) represent.
- пред'явлення 1. submission; synonyms (n) compliance, obedience, acquiescence, bid, deference, offer, surrender, entry, presentation, capitulation, conformity, meekness, consent, suggestion, (adj) resignation, 2. production; synonyms (n) output, generation, product, manufacturing, performance, creation, formation, produce, staging, fabrication, fruit, manufacture, origination, work, (v) exhibition, 3. presentation; synonyms (n) donation, demonstration, display, introduction, appearance, exposition, gift, exposure, induction, intro, overture, presentment, production, recital, show.
- **ПРЕД'ЯВЛЯТИ** produce; *synonyms* (v) give, effect, cause, make, bring, present, procreate, breed, construct, create, form, frame, generate, fetch, (n) gain.
- **IIPE3EHTAUIЯ** presentation; *synonyms* (n) donation, exhibition, demonstration, display, introduction, performance, offer, appearance, exposition, gift, exposure, induction, intro, overture, presentment.
- **президент** president; *synonyms* (n) chairman, chief, chair, chairperson, chairwoman, leader, boss, head, principal, speaker, emperor, imperator, king, majesty.
- президентство presidency; *synonyms* (n) administration, presidentship, government, brass, disposal, establishment, governance, organisation, organization, presidence, executive, management.
- IIPE3UPCTBO contempt; synonyms (n) disdain, scorn, derision, disrespect, disregard, mockery, ridicule, shame, slight, reproach, discourtesy, disrepute, arrogance, defiance, disgrace; antonyms (n) respect, approval.
- **ПРЕЙСКУРАНТ** catalogue; *synonyms* (*n*) catalog, list, bill, schedule, roll, inventory, (*v*) register, sort.

- прекрасний 1. beautiful (красивий); synonyms (adi) attractive, good-looking, bright, beauteous, fine, handsome, lovely, picturesque, pleasant, pretty, striking, sweet, adorned, ornate, dainty; antonyms (adj) ugly, unattractive, 2. wonderful (чудовий); synonyms (adj) extraordinary, marvelous, astonishing, excellent, remarkable, phenomenal, amazing, fantastic, grand, great, miraculous, strange, super, terrific, (n) incredible; antonyms (adj) awful, terrible, unpleasant, dreadful, 3. delicious; synonyms (adj) delicate, appetizing, delightful, pleasing, agreeable, charming, delectable, enjoyable, luscious, savory, toothsome, grateful, fragrant, exquisite, juicy, antonym (adj) tasteless, 4. fine; synonyms (adj) brave, capital, elegant, nice, thin, acute, admirable, alright, beautiful, choice, glorious, (n) penalty, amercement, (v) punish, mulct; antonyms (adj) poor, thick, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, wide.
- **IIPEM'EP** premier; synonyms (adj) chief, first, leading, foremost, head, arch, main, principal, (n) chancellor, minister, (v) premiere.
- **IIPEM'CP-MIHICTP** premier; *synonyms* (*adj*) chief, first, leading, foremost, head, arch, main, principal, (*n*) chancellor, minister, (*v*) premiere.
- **премія 1**. bonus; *synonyms* (*n*) award, compensation, premium, dividend, gift, gratuity, perk, prize, reward, addition, benefit, payment, perquisite, incentive, (*adj*) extra; *antonym* (*n*) disadvantage, **2**. premium; *synonyms* (*n*) bonus, agio, bounty, price, agiotage, (*adj*) superior; *antonym* (*adj*) inferior, **3**. prize; *synonyms* (*n*) plunder, treasure, booty, loot, trophy, honour, (*v*) appreciate, esteem, cherish, honor, value, admire, pry, evaluate, (*adj*) choice.
- **IIPEIIAPAT** preparation; *synonyms* (n) arrangement, concoction, provision, readiness, training, practice, formulation, homework, planning, prep, discipline, drill, instruction, background, prelude.
- **IIPEIIAPYBAHHЯ** preparation; *synonyms* (*n*) arrangement, concoction, provision, readiness, training, practice, formulation, homework, planning, prep, discipline, drill, instruction, background, prelude.
- **преподобний** reverend; *synonyms* (*adj*) venerable, revered, reverenced, (*n*) cleric, preacher, clergyman, parson, rector, priest, vicar, minister, reverence.
- **Inpec 1**. press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain, 2. mill; *synonyms* (n) grind, factory, grinder, manufactory, machine, plant, engine, gin, notch, shop, implement, instrument, (v) pulverize, spar, (adj) cent.
- **upeca** press; synonyms (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- **IIPECH** media; *synonyms* (n) medium, medial, communications, middle.
- престиж prestige; *synonyms* (n) credit, influence, power, distinction, authority, dignity, repute, reputation, standing, status, attraction, face, kudos, celebrity, glory.
- престол altar; *synonyms* (*n*) shrine, sacristy, sanctuary. **ПРЕСУВАННЯ** pressing; *synonyms* (*v*) exigent, importunate, important, (*adj*) imperative, immediate,

- critical, imperious, instant, insistent, burning, serious, grave, (n) urgent, dishing, press.
- **претендент** applicant; *synonyms* (*n*) petitioner, aspirant, candidate, applier, contender, contestant, solicitor, hopeful.
- IIPETEH/IVBATU pretend; synonyms (v) assume, feign, dissimulate, counterfeit, act, affect, dissemble, imagine, imitate, profess, mask, (adj) sham, fake, play, (n) allege; antonyms (v) real, (adj) genuine, natural.
- **ПРЕТЕНЗІЙНИЙ** ambitious; *synonyms* (*adj*) aspiring, difficult, eager, energetic, vaulting, challenging, competitive, desirous, enterprising, grandiose, pushy.
- претензія claim; synonyms (n) call, charge, allegation, privilege, right, title, (v) demand, ask, assert, exact, arrogate, contend, need, require, requisition; antonyms (v) deny, disclaim, forfeit.
- **преферанс** preference; *synonyms* (*n*) choice, inclination, liking, option, predilection, election, alternative, fondness, partiality, penchant, precedence, preferment, pleasure, fancy, advantage.
- преференція preference; synonyms (n) choice, inclination, liking, option, predilection, election, alternative, fondness, partiality, penchant, precedence, preferment, pleasure, fancy, advantage.
- **IIPM 1.** by; *synonyms* (*prep*) beside, at, of, about, on, per, (*adv*) aside, away, past, through, apart, along, beyond, (*adv*, *prep*) alongside, (*adj*) over, **2.** at; *synonyms* (*prep*) in, a, (*n*) astatine, (*prf*) all, completely, wholly, (*adj*) entertainment, levee, party, reception, conversazione, home, soiree, **3.** near; *synonyms* (*prep*) by, around, (*adv*) close, almost, towards, (*adj*) adjoining, adjacent, contiguous, imminent, impending, narrow, coming, (*v*) familiar, approximate, approach; *antonym* (*adj*) distant.
- **ПРИБИРАЛЬНИК** cleaner; *synonyms* (n) cleanser, lifter, custodian, donkeyman.
- **ПРИБИРАННЯ** cleaning; *synonyms* (n) cleansing, purge, purification, clearing, cleanup, separation, thin, refinement, wash, afterbirth, attack, clearout, crackdown, dedusting, degreasing.
- **ПРИБИРАТИ** tidy; synonyms (adj) clean, neat, trim, spruce, natty, orderly, respectable, shipshape, goodish, methodical, (v) clear, arrange, straighten, groom, neaten; antonyms (adj) untidy, disheveled, knotted.
- **ПРИБІЧНИК** supporter; *synonyms* (*n*) partisan, admirer, ally, backer, follower, friend, patron, sponsor, advocate, believer, benefactor, champion, devotee, disciple, fan; *antonyms* (*n*) opponent, skeptic, detractor, critic.
- ПРИБЛИЗНИЙ 1. rough; synonyms (adj) coarse, hard, harsh, raw, crude, cruel, grating, gross, hoarse, jagged, approximate, gruff, inclement, (n) boisterous, draft; antonyms (adj) gentle, smooth, polished, precise, refined, silky, soft, sophisticated, even, exact, glossy, pleasant,
  2. round; synonyms (adv) about, around, (adj) circular, plump, entire, chubby, complete, (n) circle, bout, ring, beat, circuit, (v) compass, turn, gird; antonyms (adj) slim, sharp
- **приблизно 1**. approximately; *synonyms* (*adv*) about, almost, around, roughly, some, just, generally, nearly, relatively; *antonyms* (*adv*) exactly, precisely, **2**. about;

- synonyms (prep) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, of, regarding, respecting, (adv) approximately, most, in, nearby, nigh, (adj) near, practically, 3. something; synonyms (pron) anything, (n) what, object, somewhat, thing, article, entity, (adv) rather, 4. nearly; synonyms (adv) close, closely, virtually, intimately, much, dear, halfway, (adj) thereabouts, approaching.
- **ΠΡΗΣ ΒΑΗΗ A** arrival (πρισύττη); *synonyms* (n) appearance, advent, entrance, incoming, newcomer, return, attainment, arriver, comer, reaching, homecoming; *antonyms* (n) departure, exit, leaving.
- **прибувати 1**. arrive; *synonyms* (*v*) come, mature, attain, fall, land, reach, succeed, show, derive, emerge, enter, get, happen, issue, (*n*) appear; *antonyms* (*v*) leave, depart, go, **2**. come (приходити); *synonyms* (*v*) approach, become, aggregate, arise, arrive, befall, amount, descend, hail, number, originate, rise, spring, total advance
- **ПРИБУТИ** arrive (прибувати); *synonyms* (*v*) come, mature, attain, fall, land, reach, succeed, show, derive, emerge, enter, get, happen, issue, (*n*) appear; *antonyms* (*v*) leave, depart, go.
- **прибутковий** 1. profitable; *synonyms* (*adj*) productive, advantageous, beneficial, fruitful, helpful, good, gainful, lucrative, useful, desirable, economic, fat, valuable, expedient, handy; *antonyms* (*adj*) unprofitable, dependent, 2. lucrative; *synonyms* (*adj*) moneymaking, remunerative, worthwhile, (v) profitable, paying.
- **прибутковість** profitability; *synonyms* (*n*) profitableness, abundance, expediency, productivity, success, effectiveness, fertility, prosperity, viability.
- **πρυδυτοκ 1.** income; *synonyms* (*n*) earnings, proceeds, profit, revenue, gain, means, pay, return, salary, yield, allowance, profits, receipts, wages, livelihood; *antonym* (*n*) loss, **2.** profit; *synonyms* (*n*) benefit, account, good, produce, increase, dividend, interest, lucre, behalf, (*v*) net, advance, avail, earn, help, (*adj*) advantage; *antonym* (*v*) lose, **3.** proceeds; *synonyms* (*n*) income, issue, take, emolument, payoff, takings, proceed, incomings, outcome, effect, result, innings, **4.** earnings; *synonyms* (*n*) wage, compensation, remuneration, returns, **5.** return; *synonyms* (*n*) recompense, refund, restitution, (*v*) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer, reinstate, reply, requite, revert; *antonyms* (*n*) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (*v*) keep, **6.** revenue; *synonyms* (*n*) gate, resources, taxation,
- прибуття 1. arrival; synonyms (n) appearance, advent, entrance, incoming, newcomer, return, attainment, arriver, comer, reaching, homecoming; antonyms (n) departure, exit, leaving, 2. advent; synonyms (n) coming, arrival, approach, emergence.
- **привабливий 1**. attractive; *synonyms* (*adj*) alluring, amiable, appealing, charming, engaging, good-looking, tempting, adorable, delightful, enchanting, fascinating, glamorous, gorgeous, handsome, interesting; *antonyms* (*adj*) unattractive, ugly, unappealing, disgusting, repellent, revolting, repulsive, straight, unpleasant, **2**. appealing; *synonyms* (*adj*) absorbing, inviting,

- prepossessing, likable, magnetic, pretty, lovable, attractive, captivating, enthralling, enticing, exciting, imploring, likeable, lovely, **3**. catching, synonyms (adj) contagious, communicable, infectious, epidemic, (n) discovery, take, **4**. pretty; synonyms (adv) very, fairly, jolly, quite, (adj) beautiful, fair, graceful, picturesque, dainty, cute, elegant, fine, neat, pleasing, (n) nice.
- привабливість 1. charm; synonyms (n) allure, amulet, appeal, spell, attraction, conjure, (v) attract, captivate, bewitch, fascinate, enchant, entrance, beguile, capture, enamor; antonyms (n) repulsion, ugliness, (v) repel, 2. attraction; synonyms (n) enticement, invitation, affinity, allurement, charm, lure, attractiveness, bait, draw, fascination, inducement, magnetism, temptation, magnet, interest; antonyms (n) disgust, revulsion, 3. affinity; synonyms (n) sympathy, analogy, alliance, bond, kindred, propinquity, rapport, relation, relationship, semblance, penchant, agreement, attachment, conformity, connection.
- приваблювати 1. attract; synonyms (v) fascinate, charm, beguile, captivate, draw, enamor, entice, invite, tempt, arrest, absorb, appeal, attach, beckon, (adj) allure; antonyms (v) repel, disgust, 2. appeal; synonyms (n) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, magnetism, (v) request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; antonym (n) unpleasantness.
- приватний private; *synonyms* (*adj*) clandestine, confidential, personal, covert, hidden, individual, secret, inner, esoteric, exclusive, intimate, particular, domestic, interior, (*v*) close; *antonyms* (*adj*) public, communal, community, nationalized, official, state-owned, civic, shared, state.
- **ПРИВЕСТИ** bring (приносити); *synonyms* (v) convey, fetch, bear, carry, conduct, get, put, take, reduce, afford, bestow, deliver, land, move, provide.
- **привид** ghost; *synonyms* (n) apparition, shade, spirit, soul, spectre, spook, appearance, manes, suggestion, shadow, touch, trace, (v) specter, ghostwrite, haunt.
- привід 1. cause; synonyms (n) case, action, occasion, account, basis, campaign, (v) make, breed, do, induce, allow, arouse, beget, bring, engender; antonym (n) consequence, 2. reason; synonyms (n) mind, intellect, argument, object, purpose, rationality, understanding, explanation, (v) cause, argue, debate, conclude, deduce, discuss, ground, 3. occasion (випадок); synonyms (n) event, chance, episode, happening, incident, juncture, motive, opportunity, circumstance, matter, affair, (v) create, raise, generate, inspire, 4. motive; synonyms (n) impulse, incentive, incitement, inducement, motif, motivation, reason, subject, design, grounds, stimulus, urge, end, (v) aim, consideration.
- привілей 1. privilege; synonyms (n) charter, immunity, liberty, prerogative, freedom, exemption, franchise, grant, concession, claim, due, permit, (v) license, favor, favour, 2. franchise; synonyms (n) privilege, suffrage, vote, absolution, dispensation, patent, release, dealership, excuse, exoneration, 3. patent (патент); synonyms (adj) obvious, overt, apparent, evident, manifest, clear, conspicuous, open, palpable, plain, explicit, marked, noticeable, transparent, unmistakable; antonym (adj) unclear.

- привіт hello; *synonyms* (n) greeting, hi, howdy, hullo, welcome, (v) hail.
- **ПРИВІТАТИ** welcome (вітати); *synonyms* (*adj*) acceptable, pleasant, agreeable, pleasing, enjoyable, (*v*) accept, greet, invite, receive, hail, entertain, (*n*) salute, hospitality, reception, embrace; *antonyms* (*adj*) unwelcome, unwanted, (*v*) reject.
- ПРИВІТНИЙ kindly; synonyms (adv) gently, (adj) kind, amiable, benign, friendly, genial, gentle, affable, charitable, humane, sympathetic, considerate, generous, (n) benevolent, compassionate; antonyms (adv) unkindly, harshly, callously, cruelly, nastily, disagreeably, grumpily, malevolently, sharply, (adj) upsetting, sour, unfeeling.
- **ПРИВЛАСНЕННЯ** 1. assumption; *synonyms* (*n*) presumption, supposition, hypothesis, premise, adoption, arrogance, acceptance, belief, conclusion, conjecture, guess, idea, surmise, theory, notion, **2**. grab; *synonyms* (*v*) capture, get, snatch, appropriate, clasp, clutch, fascinate, grapple, rob, seize, assume, attract, (*n*) arrest, catch, seizure.
- **ПРИВЛАСНИТИ** appropriate (відповідний); synonyms (adj) pertinent, proper, true, agreeable, apposite, apt, congruous, correct, particular, peculiar, right, (v) annex, allocate, adopt, seize; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, unsuitable, unrelated, untimely, wrong, (v) surrender.
- ПРИВЛАСНЮВАТИ 1. appropriate
  - (відповідний); synonyms (adj) pertinent, proper, true, agreeable, apposite, apt, congruous, correct, particular, peculiar, right, (v) annex, allocate, adopt, seize; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, unsuitable, unrelated, untimely, wrong, (v) surrender, 2. grab; synonyms (v) capture, get, snatch, appropriate, clasp, clutch, fascinate, grapple, rob, assume, attract, (n) arrest, catch, seizure, collar, 3. pocket; synonyms (n) cavity, pouch, hole, hollow, poke, purse, (v) bag, take, sack, steal, lift, embezzle, misappropriate, pilfer, (adj) digest.
- **приводити** bring (приносити); *synonyms* (*v*) convey, fetch, bear, carry, conduct, get, put, take, reduce, afford, bestow, deliver, land, move, provide.
- IIPИВЧАТИ school (ШКОЛА); synonyms (n) academy, class, sect, college, herd, shoal, swarm, (v) educate, instruct, train, coach, cultivate, discipline, edify, teach.
- IIPMB'93AHUĬ attached; synonyms (adj) connected, affectionate, affiliated, committed, associated, devoted, fond, loving, loyal, near; antonyms (adj) detached, separate unmarried.
- прив'язувати 1. rope; synonyms (n) cable, lasso, lariat, noose, cord, hawser, leash, line, string, tape, lace, tether, thread, (v) tie, bind, 2. tie; synonyms (n) band, connection, draw, association, relationship, sleeper, strap, deadlock, (v) link, bond, attach, join, knot, connect, fasten; antonyms (v) disconnect, untie, undo.
- ПРИГАДАТИ remember; *synonyms* (v) commemorate, recognize, recall, recollect, consider, record, remind, retain, think, review, ponder, mark, imagine, refresh, cite; *antonym* (v) forget.
- **ПРИГАДУВАТИ** remember; *synonyms* (*v*) commemorate, recognize, recall, recollect, consider,

- record, remind, retain, think, review, ponder, mark, imagine, refresh, cite; *antonym* (v) forget.
- ПРИГАНЯТИ 1. adjust; synonyms (v) temper, accommodate, adapt, align, acclimatize, balance, fit, fix, reconcile, regulate, set, alter, arrange, (adj) dress, (n) square, 2. adapt; synonyms (v) adjust, acclimate, fashion, assimilate, change, edit, familiarize, gear, modify, shape, suit, tailor, accustom, conform, convert.
- **ΠΡΗΓΗΙΨΕΗΙCTЬ** oppression; *synonyms* (n) injustice, abuse, despotism, tyranny, weight, dictatorship, stress, wrong, severity, violence, compression, (ν) hardship, grievance, (adj) autocracy, molestation.
- **пригнічення** oppression; *synonyms* (*n*) injustice, abuse, despotism, tyranny, weight, dictatorship, stress, wrong, severity, violence, compression, (*v*) hardship, grievance, (*adj*) autocracy, molestation.
- **ПРИГНОБЛЕНИЙ** depressed; *synonyms* (*adj*) concave, low, blue, dejected, dispirited, down, downcast, downhearted, gloomy, hollow, sad, crestfallen, disappointed, discouraged, flat; *antonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, happy, convex.
- **ПРИТНОБЛЕННЯ** oppression; *synonyms* (*n*) injustice, abuse, despotism, tyranny, weight, dictatorship, stress, wrong, severity, violence, compression, (*v*) hardship, grievance, (*adj*) autocracy, molestation.
- пригода 1. adventure; *synonyms* (*n*) venture, accident, chance, escapade, event, incident, undertaking, consequence, essay, circumstance, enterprise, experience, (*v*) hazard, risk, dare, 2. affair; *synonyms* (*n*) matter, business, concern, job, occasion, occurrence, amour, duty, happening, issue, party, subject, theme, thing, topic.
- приголомшливий 1. fabulous; synonyms (adj) incredible, mythical, fabled, legendary, amazing, fab, imaginary, marvelous, mythological, spectacular, terrific, wonderful, unreal, brilliant, excellent; antonym (adj) awful, 2. stunning; synonyms (adj) gorgeous, beautiful, awesome, striking, tremendous, glorious, astonishing, astounding, dazzling, sensational, surprising, arresting, overwhelming, stupendous, lovely; antonym (adj) ugly.
- приготування preparation; *synonyms* (n) arrangement, concoction, provision, readiness, training, practice, formulation, homework, planning, prep, discipline, drill, instruction, background, prelude.
- **приготувати** prepare; *synonyms* (*v*) arrange, fix, form, plan, dress, coach, devise, lay, make, set, adjust, concoct, cook, equip, fit.
- пригощати feast; synonyms (n) banquet, dinner, entertainment, binge, carousal, celebration, festival, meal, spread, (v) junket, fete, eat, feed, treat, entertain; antonym (v) fast.
- придатний 1. applicable; synonyms (adj) relevant, germane, pertinent, proper, suitable, applicative, applicatory, appropriate, apropos, available, fitting, relative, admissible, (n) felicitous, happy; antonyms (adj) unsuitable, irrelevant, 2. suitable; synonyms (adj) fit, good, apt, right, convenient, eligible, apposite, correct, desirable, due, decorous, respectable, fitted, (n)

- seasonable, (v) becoming; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, wrong, improper, 3. fit; synonyms (v) agree, accommodate, meet, suit, adapt, correspond, square, accord, dress, befit, (adj) applicable, (n) adjust, convulsion, attack, burst; antonyms (adj) unfit, unwell, 4. apt; synonyms (adj) adroit, intelligent, able, adequate, dexterous, efficient, ready, smart, clever, deft, disposed, expert, just, liable, likely, 5. available; synonyms (adj) accessible, free, possible, attainable, handy, obtainable, open, uncommitted, usable, vacant, valid, (adv) present; antonyms (adj) unavailable, occupied, suppressed, concealed, engaged, 6. appropriate (відповідний); synonyms (adj) true, agreeable, congruous, particular, peculiar, special, advantageous, (v) annex, allocate, adopt, seize, apply, allot, allow, assign; antonyms (adj) unrelated, untimely, (v) surrender, 7. convenient; synonyms (adj) comfortable, commodious, expedient, near, nearby, opportune, timely, useful, snug, auspicious, close, helpful, pat, propitious, (n) favorable; antonyms (adj) inconvenient, fixed, unwieldy, useless, 8. calculated; synonyms (v) advised, designed, (adi) deliberate, conscious, intended, intentional, premeditated, purposeful, studied, measured, planned, strategic; antonym (adi) accidental, 9. feasible; synonyms (adj) practicable, probable, achievable, credible, doable, practical, realizable, viable, executable, plausible, thinkable, workable; antonym (adj) impossible, 10. good; synonyms (adj) benefit, delicious, capable, excellent, fine, nice, superior, well, generous, gentle, admirable, beneficent, (n) benign, advantage, gain; antonyms (adj) disobedient, poor, wicked, unpleasant, (n) evil, bad.
- придатність 1. fitness; *synonyms* (*n*) ability, adequacy, appropriateness, aptness, capability, propriety, correspondence, competence, competency, convenience, correctness, fittingness, health, qualification, congruity; *antonyms* (*n*) unsuitability, inability, unfitness, 2. availability; *synonyms* (*n*) accessibility, handiness, approachability, availableness, opening, supply.
- **придаток** appendix; *synonyms* (*n*) addition, adjunct, addendum, annex, appendage, accessory, (*v*) supplement.
- **ПРИДБАННЯ 1.** acquisition; *synonyms* (*n*) purchase, accomplishment, acquirement, attainment, achievement, conquest, buy, getting, learning, prize, profit, assumption, (*v*) gain, **2.** purchase (купувати); *synonyms* (*n*) acquisition, bargain, leverage, grip, hold, (*v*) get, obtain, contract, acquire, bribe, procure, take, attain; *antonyms* (*n*) transaction, (*v*) sell.
- ПРИДБАТИ 1. get; synonyms (v) acquire, gain, attain, become, catch, earn, buy, come, fall, fetch, take, achieve, beget, bring, capture; antonyms (v) lose, give, leave, 2. purchase (купувати); synonyms (n) acquisition, bargain, leverage, acquirement, grip, hold, (v) get, obtain, contract, bribe, procure; antonyms (n) transaction, (v) sell.
- **ПРИДВОРНИЙ** waiting; *synonyms* (*adj*) ready, expectant, hesitant, (*n*) wait, abeyance, suspense, expectancy, hold, ambush, delay, postponement.
- **ПРИДІЛЯТИ** spare; *synonyms* (*adj*) reserve, slender, excess, save, slight, additional, lean, slim, thin, bare, (*v*) free, meager, exempt, (*n*) extra, backup.

- **ПРИДУМУВАТИ** think; *synonyms* (*v*) consider, believe, reckon, estimate, guess, hold, imagine, muse, ponder, reflect, regard, suppose, cogitate, conjecture, contemplate; *antonym* (*v*) forget.
- **ПРИДУРКУВАТИЙ** foolish; *synonyms* (*adj*) childish, crazy, fool, daft, dopey, dull, dumb, fatuous, preposterous, silly, stupid, unwise, anserine, dopy, (*n*) absurd; *antonyms* (*adj*) wise, sensible, prudent, shrewd, visionary.
- **ПРИДУШЕННЯ** repression; *synonyms* (n) constraint, restraint, coercion, confinement, check, suppression, cohibition, despotism, domination; *antonyms* (n) democracy, expression.
- ПРИЄДНАННЯ inclusion; synonyms (n) comprehension, implication, incorporation, addition, embodiment, amalgamation, assimilation, belonging, combination, epitome, integration, merger, absorption, attachment, composition; antonyms (n) exclusion, exception.
- **ПРИСДНУВАТИ 1.** add (додавати); synonyms (v) calculate, include, join, total, figure, lend, mix, divide, subtract, gather, accumulate, adjoin, affix, annex, (n) addition; antonym (v) detach, 2. join; synonyms (v) connect, unite, associate, combine, link, graft, assemble, affiliate, attach, meet, conjoin, converge, couple, enroll, (n) bond; antonyms (v) secede, separate, split, undo.
- IIPHEZHYBATHCS join; synonyms (v) connect, unite, associate, combine, link, graft, assemble, affiliate, attach, meet, affix, annex, conjoin, converge, (n) bond; antonyms (v) detach, secede, separate, split, undo.
- приємний 1. pleasant; synonyms (adi) bright, acceptable, agreeable, amiable, charming, jolly, kindly, nice, facetious, affable, attractive, cheerful, clear, comfortable, congenial; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, disagreeable, disgusting, foul, gruesome, harsh, horrible, nasty, repugnant, shocking, terrible, unwelcome, appalling, discordant, frosty, 2. welcome (вітати); synonyms (adj) pleasant, pleasing, enjoyable, grateful, gratifying, (v) accept, greet, invite, receive, hail, entertain, (n) salute, hospitality, reception, embrace; antonyms (adj) unwanted, (v) reject, 3. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, correct, decent, delicate, difficult, exact, 4. acceptable; synonyms (adi) adequate, passable, satisfactory, desirable, palatable, permissible, reasonable, sufficient, suitable, tolerable, welcome, right, accepted, admissible, advisable; antonyms (adj) unacceptable, inadequate, unsatisfactory, forbidden, unbearable, 5. good; synonyms (adj) able, benefit, efficient, capable, excellent, superior, well, advantageous, generous, gentle, admirable, beneficent, (n) benign, advantage, gain; antonyms (adj) disobedient, poor, wicked, (n) evil, bad, 6. grateful; synonyms (adj) thankful, appreciative, beholden, indebted, obliged; antonym (adj) ungrateful, 7. pretty; synonyms (adv) very, fairly, quite, rather, somewhat, moderately, (adj) fair, graceful, handsome, good-looking, picturesque, cute, elegant, smart, comely; antonym (adj) ugly, 8. satisfactory; synonyms (adj) enough, competent, ample, presentable, plenty, respectable, commensurate, full, average.

- **ΠΡΗCMHO** nicely; *synonyms* (*adv*) well, gently, agreeably, exactly, pleasantly, pleasingly, subtly, correctly, daintily, delicately, deliciously, (*adj*) effectually; *antonym* (*adv*) unpleasantly.
- приз 1. prize; *synonyms* (*n*) award, plunder, treasure, booty, premium, loot, price, trophy, (*v*) appreciate, esteem, cherish, honor, value, admire, pry, 2. trophy; *synonyms* (*n*) prize, monument, hatchment, slab, tablet.
- **ПРИЗВОДИТИ** bring (приносити); *synonyms* (*v*) convey, fetch, bear, carry, conduct, get, put, take, reduce, afford, bestow, deliver, land, move, provide.
- **ПРИЗЕМ.JIEHHЯ** landing; *synonyms* (*n*) land, dock, touchdown, floor, platform, arrival, brow, approach, coming, dais, decking, harbor, model, plan, plat.
- IIPU3EMJUTICS land; synonyms (n) ground, country, soil, field, kingdom, domain, estate, nation, realm, state, (v) disembark, debark, alight, get, drop; antonym (adj) aquatic.
- IIPU3EMJITUCH 1. ground; synonyms (n) base, cause, land, floor, reason, dirt, field, soil, account, country, basis, (v) bottom, found, establish, fix; antonym (n) ceiling, 2. land; synonyms (n) ground, kingdom, domain, estate, nation, realm, state, empire, (v) disembark, debark, alight, get, drop, arrive, bring; antonym (adj) aquatic.
- ПРИЗНАВАТИ recognize (визнавати); synonyms
  (v) acknowledge, know, discern, distinguish, identify, admit, discover, allow, appreciate, confess, realize, notice, descry, accredit, agnize.
- **IIPU3HAK** symptom; *synonyms* (*n*) sign, indication, evidence, mark, note, manifestation, token, signal, characteristic, omen, exponent.
- призначати 1. appoint; synonyms (v) assign, nominate, accredit, delegate, designate, prescribe, set, create, choose, commission, constitute, depute, destine, elect, (n) name, 2. constitute; synonyms (v) compose, form, make, appoint, comprise, establish, build, be, construct, found, institute, ordain, organize, configure, consist, 3. make (робити); synonyms (v) cause, do, fashion, force, get, give, produce, let, compel, design, drive, erect, execute, fabricate, fetch; antonyms (v) destroy, lose, 4. name; synonyms (n) call, title, epithet, address, appellation, denomination, (v) baptize, describe, cite, entitle, enumerate, identify, list, mention, denominate.
- призначення 1. appointment; synonyms (n) assignment, date, designation, engagement, fitting, post, rendezvous, berth, conference, election, assignation, commission, encounter, job, meeting, 2. assignment; synonyms (n) allocation, allotment, appointment, assigning, mission, apportionment, stint, business, chore, charge, consignment, duty, transfer, conveyance, delivery, 3. destination; synonyms (n) goal, address, haven, doom, destiny, fate, finish, purpose, target, terminus, 4. allocation; synonyms (n) portion, allowance, quota, share, grant, apportioning, appropriation, distribution, measure, part, proportion, ration.
- **IIPU3HAUITU** appoint; *synonyms* (v) assign, nominate, accredit, delegate, designate, prescribe, set, create, choose, commission, constitute, depute, destine, elect, (n) name.

- **ПРИЇЖДЖАТИ** come (приходити); *synonyms* (v) approach, become, aggregate, appear, arise, arrive, fall, befall, amount, descend, get, go, hail, number, originate; *antonym* (v) leave.
- **приїзд** arrival (прибуття); *synonyms* (*n*) appearance, advent, entrance, incoming, newcomer, return, attainment, arriver, comer, reaching, homecoming; *antonyms* (*n*) departure, exit, leaving.
- **ПРИЇЗДИТИ** come (приходити); *synonyms* (*v*) approach, become, aggregate, appear, arise, arrive, fall, befall, amount, descend, get, go, hail, number, originate; *antonym* (*v*) leave.
- **ПРИЇХАТИ** arrive (прибувати); *synonyms* (*v*) come, mature, attain, fall, land, reach, succeed, show, derive, emerge, enter, get, happen, issue, (*n*) appear; *antonyms* (*v*) leave, depart, go.
- **ПРИЙДЕШНІЙ 1.** future (майбутнє); *synonyms* (*adj*) unborn, coming, prospective, intended, potential, approaching, forthcoming, imminent, impending, later, (*n*) prospect, hereafter, fate, futurity, (*v*) horizon; *antonym* (*n*) past, **2.** forthcoming; *synonyms* (*adj*) future, outgoing, upcoming, oncoming, pending, extroverted, gracious, (*v*) batching, brewing; *antonym* (*add*) reserved.
- приймання 1. reception; synonyms (n) receipt, acceptance, admission, entertainment, greeting, party, receiving, adoption, getting, salutation, acceptation, comprehension, admittance, inclusion, (adj) soiree, 2. acceptance; synonyms (n) acknowledgment, recognition, accession, acquiescence, approval, assumption, confirmation, credence, ratification, welcome, belief, agreement, assent, consent, espousal; antonyms (n) rejection, refutation, dispatch.
- приймати 1. accept; synonyms (v) receive, acknowledge, admit, take, recognize, abide, accede, acquiesce, adopt, assume, believe, yield, agree, approve, assent; antonyms (v) refuse, reject, deny, snub, oppose, renounce, resist, 2. adopt; synonyms (v) accept, affiliate, borrow, espouse, pass, acquire, choose, embrace, follow, imitate, naturalize, prefer, ratify, undertake, use, 3, receive: synonyms (v) get, bear. have, obtain, welcome, make, gather, greet, hear, earn, own, realize, derive, entertain, include, 4, assume: synonyms (v) affect, appropriate, arrogate, feign. presume, sham, simulate, suppose, understand, usurp, feel, conclude, conjecture, deduce, don, 5. take; synonyms (v) hold, carry, catch, clutch, return, pick, bring, capture, claim, convey, demand, grab, interpret, require, (n) seize; antonyms (v) give, abstain, add, lose.
- ПРИИМАЧ receiver; synonyms (n) recipient, beneficiary, cashier, earpiece, headset, liquidator, collector, phone, telephone, matrass, questor; antonym (n) donor.
- **ПРИЙНЯТИ 1.** accept (приймати); *synonyms* (v) receive, acknowledge, admit, take, recognize, abide, accede, acquiesce, adopt, assume, believe, yield, agree, approve, assent, *antonyms* (v) refuse, reject, deny, snub, oppose, renounce, resist, **2.** receive; *synonyms* (v) accept, get, bear, have, obtain, welcome, make, embrace, gather, greet, hear, earn, own, realize, derive.

- прийнятий accepted; synonyms (adj) acceptable, conventional, acknowledged, assumed, established, orthodox, understood, approved, current, received, customary, habitual, known, popular, proper; antonyms (adj) concealed, unpopular, unusual.
- прийнятний 1. acceptable; synonyms (adj) adequate, passable, satisfactory, good, agreeable, correct, decent, desirable, grateful, palatable, permissible, reasonable, sufficient, suitable, tolerable; antonyms (adj) unacceptable, inadequate, unsatisfactory, disagreeable, forbidden, unbearable, unwelcome, 2. reasonable; synonyms (adj) just, moderate, rational, fair, legitimate, judicious, sensible, admissible, appropriate, cheap, due, equitable, impartial, inexpensive, intelligent; antonyms (adj) illogical, unreasonable, expensive, unfair.
- прийняття 1. adoption; synonyms (n) acceptance, espousal, assumption, borrowing, cooptation, enactment, maintenance, affiliation, (adj) conversion, inspiration, justification, regeneration, salvation, sanctification, (v) passage, 2. acceptance; synonyms (n) acceptation, acknowledgment, adoption, recognition, accession, acquiescence, approval, confirmation, credence, ratification, receipt, welcome, belief, admission, agreement; antonyms (n) rejection, refutation, dispatch, 3. arrival (прибуття); synonyms (n) appearance, advent, entrance, incoming, newcomer, return, attainment, arriver, comer, reaching, homecoming; antonyms (n) departure, exit, leaving.
- **ПРИЙОМ 1**. welcome (вітати); synonyms (adj) acceptable, pleasant, agreeable, pleasing, enjoyable, (v) accept, greet, invite, receive, hail, entertain, (n) salute, hospitality, reception, embrace; antonyms (adj) unwelcome, unwanted, (v) reject, 2. acceptance; synonyms (n) acceptation, acknowledgment, adoption, recognition, accession, acquiescence, approval, assumption, confirmation, credence, ratification, receipt, welcome, belief, admission; antonyms (n) rejection, refutation, dispatch, 3, entertainment; synonyms (n) amusement, distraction, diversion, enjoyment, party. feast, fun, pastime, pleasure, recreation, regalement, show, cheer, banquet, carousal, 4. device; synonyms (n) contrivance, apparatus, appliance, artifice, emblem, contraption, figure, gimmick, invention, plan, trick, way, design, dodge, expedient.
- **ПРИЙТИ** come (приходити); *synonyms* (v) approach, become, aggregate, appear, arise, arrive, fall, befall, amount, descend, get, go, hail, number, originate; *antonym* (v) leave.
- **приказка** saying; *synonyms* (*v*) proverb, (*n*) maxim, axiom, adage, saw, phrase, aphorism, byword, dictum, expression, idiom, motto, locution, apothegm, declaration.
- **ПРИКИДАТИСЯ 1.** affect; *synonyms* (v) touch, move, act, fake, feign, impress, pretend, strike, concern, dispose, dissemble, hit, influence, involve, lead, **2.** pretend; *synonyms* (v) assume, dissimulate, counterfeit, affect, imagine, imitate, profess, mask, masquerade, disguise, (adj) sham, play, pretended, (n) allege, contend; *antonyms* (v) real, (adj) genuine, natural.
- **прик**лад 1. example; *synonyms* (*n*) case, exemplar, illustration, instance, lead, sample, design, guide, model,

- paradigm, pattern, precedent, prototype, archetype, piece, 2. sample; synonyms (n) example, specimen, assay, representative, appetizer, (v) taste, try, attempt, essay, prove, sip, bit, (adj) test, trial, outline, 3. witness; synonyms (n) spectator, testimony, bystander, eyewitness, onlooker, evidence, observer, testifier, beholder, proof, (v) attest, observe, notice, see, view; antonym (n) participant, 4. club; synonyms (n) association, bat, circle, society, stick, baton, company, cudgel, fraternity, gang, group, guild, (v) beat, bludgeon, hit, 5. instance; synonyms (n) time, affair, chance, cause, event, occasion, occurrence, casing, (v) exemplify, illustrate, cite, entreaty, invitation, solicitation, supplication, 6. illustration; synonyms (n) chart, depiction, description, exemplification, figure. demonstration, drawing, explanation, image, picture, sketch, diagram, exposition, likeness, plan, 7. lead (свинець); synonyms (v) head, conduct, contribute, direct, chair, conduce, control, go, govern, bring, convey, give, carry, (n) clue, advantage; antonym (v)
- ПРИКЛАДАННЯ application; synonyms (n) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, demand, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, call, claim.
- **ПРИКЛАДАТИ** apply; *synonyms* (v) dedicate, devote, employ, ask, consume, exercise, resort, use, utilize, lay, appeal, address, administer, consecrate, (n) give.
- **ПРИКЛАДНИЙ** engineering; *synonyms* (n) mechanism, technology, architecture, business, commerce, complicity, machinery, trade, production, (*adj*) manufacturing.
- ПРИКЛЕЮВАТИ stick; synonyms (n) bar, club, (v) adhere, stab, attach, cling, fix, paste, staff, cohere, affix, bind, cleave, fasten, hold.
- **ΠΡΗΚΜΕΤΑ** sign; *synonyms* (n) signal, indication, mark, motion, portent, brand, emblem, imprint, manifestation, omen, poster, presage, wave, (ν) gesture, indicate
- **прикметник** adjective; *synonyms* (*adj*) adjectival, procedural.
- ПРИКОМАНДИРОВАНИЙ attached; synonyms (adj) connected, affectionate, affiliated, committed, associated, devoted, fond, loving, loyal, near; antonyms (adj) detached, separate, unmarried.
- прикраса decoration; synonyms (n) adornment, award, garnish, medal, ornament, embellishment, finery, insignia, ornamentation, trimming, accessory, badge, accolade, distinction, embroidery.
- **ПРИКРИВАТИ** screen; *synonyms* (n) shade, blind, riddle, disguise, partition, veil, guard, (v) cover, shield, conceal, hide, mask, protect, shelter, cloak.
- ПРИКРІПЛЕНИЙ attached; synonyms (adj) connected, affectionate, affiliated, committed, associated, devoted, fond, loving, loyal, near; antonyms (adj) detached, separate, unmarried.
- **ПРИКРІПІЛЕННЯ** attachment; *synonyms* (n) affection, appendix, accessory, addition, adherence, regard, appendage, association, bond, connection, devotion, fitting, fondness, liking, link; *antonym* (n) detachment.

- **ПРИКРІСТЬ 1.** disappointment; *synonyms* (*n*) defeat, anticlimax, comedown, failure, frustration, letdown, annoyance, discouragement, disillusionment, dismay, misfortune, regret, reverse, setback, shame; *antonyms* (*n*) success, satisfaction, boost, **2.** nuisance; *synonyms* (*n*) bother, harassment, hassle, inconvenience, irritation, pain, pest, mischief, bore, botheration, disturbance, plague, trouble, drawback, (*adj*) grievance; *antonym* (*n*) pleasure.
- прилавок 1. counter; synonyms (n) buffet, bench, reverse, (v) reply, contradict, resist, answer, react, respond, retort, thwart, (adj) converse, antagonistic, contrary, opposite, 2. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow, 3. stall; synonyms (n) booth, barn, carrel, compartment, delay, stand, cabin, hut, kiosk, stalling, cubicle, chair, (v) procrastinate, wait, hedge.
- прилад 1. apparatus (апарат); synonyms (n) appliance, device, implement, instrument, plant, tackle, equipment, gadget, gear, machine, contrivance, machinery, mechanism, outfit, rig, 2. device; synonyms (n) apparatus, artifice, emblem, contraption, figure, gimmick, invention, plan, trick, way, design, dodge, expedient, machination, plot, 3. instrument; synonyms (n) channel, deed, agency, document, pawn, tool, agent, engine, means, medium, creature, intermediary, muniment, organ, puppet.
- **ПРИ**ЛАДДЯ accessories; *synonyms* (*n*) fittings, equipment, accompaniments, garnishes, possession, trimmings, accouterments, frills, garnishing, trappings.
- приладжувати adapt; synonyms (v) adjust, accommodate, acclimate, fashion, alter, arrange, assimilate, change, edit, familiarize, gear, modify, shape, suit, (adi) fit.
- **ПРИЛЕГЛИЙ** adjacent; *synonyms* (*adj*) abutting, adjoining, close, contiguous, conterminous, nearby, neighboring, next, touching, bordering, handy, immediate, nigh, (*adv*) near; *antonym* (*adj*) distant.
- прилюдний public; synonyms (adj) common, national, overt, civic, general, communal, mutual, popular, ordinary, (n) folk, community, people, populace, audience, (v) open; antonyms (adj) private, confidential, personal.
- **IIPUMAHKA** attraction; *synonyms* (n) allure, enticement, invitation, affinity, allurement, appeal, charm, lure, attractiveness, bait, draw, fascination, inducement, magnetism, temptation; *antonyms* (n) repulsion, disgust, revulsion.
- примара ghost; *synonyms* (n) apparition, shade, spirit, soul, spectre, spook, appearance, manes, suggestion, shadow, touch, trace, (v) specter, ghostwrite, haunt.
- **ΠΡИΜИРЕННЯ** reconciliation; *synonyms* (n) accommodation, adjustment, agreement, rapprochement, appeasement, harmony, pacification, reconcilement, accord, mediation, atonement, balancing, (ν) concord, peace.
- **ПРИМИРЯТИ** accommodate; *synonyms* (v) adapt, adjust, fit, oblige, contain, fashion, hold, lodge, provide, quarter, reconcile, supply, harmonise, admit, (*adj*) suit; *antonym* (v) evict.

- примірник сору; *synonyms* (n) imitation, trace, transcription, forgery, (v) counterfeit, imitate, ape, duplicate, model, pattern, follow, echo, fake, mimic, record; *antonym* (n) original.
- **приміський** suburban; *synonyms* (*adj*) city, housing, inhabited, rural, suburbian, uptown, (*v*) circumferential.
- примітивний 1. primitive; synonyms (adj) primeval, primary, antediluvian, archaic, crude, early, first, original, aboriginal, ancient, antiquated, basic, primal, primordial, radical; antonym (adj) modern, 2. rude; synonyms (adj) gross, rough, impudent, blunt, coarse, bold, brutal, discourteous, impolite, mean, abusive, barbarous, churlish, crass, (n) abrupt; antonyms (adj) polite, respectful, chivalrous, courteous, refined, civil, decent, proper, well-mannered.
- примітка 1. note; synonyms (n) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, (v) notice, mind, look, detect; antonym (v) ignore, 2. remark; synonyms (n) observation, regard, commentary, observance, reflection, word, declaration, statement, quip, (v) note, observe, perceive, discern, see, (adj) attend, 3. notation; synonyms (n) memo, memorandum, register, annotating, banknote, billet, digit, document, eminence, greenback, line, transcript, transcription, (v) addition, approximation.
- ПРИМІТНИЙ noticeable; synonyms (adj)
  conspicuous, notable, apparent, discernible, evident,
  marked, noteworthy, appreciable, considerable,
  perceptible, remarkable, visible, eminent, salient, signal;
  antonyms (adj) imperceptible, obscure, inconspicuous,
  hidden, unobtrusive.
- **ΠΡΗΜΙЩΕΗΗЯ 1.** house; *synonyms* (n) family, home, dwelling, firm, abode, domicile, building, edifice, habitation, housing, establishment, structure, ancestry, (ν) accommodate, lodge, **2.** accommodation; *synonyms* (n) adjustment, compromise, loan, lodging, adaptation, agreement, apartment, appeasement, convenience, ease, facility, fitting, (ν) advance, (adj) adaption.
- **ПРИМОРСЬКИЙ** maritime; *synonyms* (*adj*) marine, nautical, sea, (*v*) seafaring.
- **IIPUMYC** constraint; *synonyms* (n) coercion, compulsion, force, restraint, confinement, duress, enforcement, limitation, obligation, pressure, restriction, coaction, check, condition, (adj) reserve; *antonym* (n) incentive.
- **ПРИМУСОВИЙ** compulsory; *synonyms* (*adj*) obligatory, required, binding, involuntary, mandatory, necessary, imperative, forcible, essential, requisite, unavoidable; *antonyms* (*adj*) optional, voluntary.
- **примушувати 1**. urge; *synonyms* (n) goad, spur, drive, impulse, (v) push, advocate, press, force, impel, incite, induce, inspire, instigate, persuade, prompt; *antonym* (v) discourage, 2. enforce; *synonyms* (v) coerce, compel, constrain, apply, execute, implement, impose, dispense, effect, impress, accomplish, enjoin, inflict, make, (n) assert, 3. force; *synonyms* (n) energy, strength, agency, enforce, impetus, power, vigor, violence, effectiveness, (v) pressure, squeeze, thrust, cram, ram, blackmail; *antonyms* (n) weakness, persuasion.

- **ПРИМХЛИВИЙ 1**. arbitrary; *synonyms* (*adj*) absolute, capricious, dictatorial, optional, erratic, random, peremptory, masterful, haphazard, autocratic, discretionary, dogmatic, domineering, freakish, imperious, **2**. naughty; *synonyms* (*adj*) bad, blue, impish, mischievous, improper, disobedient, insubordinate, wicked, evil, lewd, dark, defiant, racy, rebellious, risque; *antonyms* (*adj*) well-behaved, good.
- IIPUHAJIA temptation; synonyms (n) enticement, lure, attraction, bait, allurement, invitation, seduction, inducement, allure, appeal, pull, decoy, fancy, fascination, influence; antonym (n) repulsion.
- **ПРИНА**ДНИЙ tempting; synonyms (adj) inviting, alluring, seductive, attractive, enticing, charming, tantalizing, appealing, captivating, beguiling, delicious, irresistible; antonym (adj) unappealing.
- принадність charm; *synonyms* (*n*) allure, amulet, appeal, spell, attraction, conjure, (*v*) attract, captivate, bewitch, fascinate, enchant, entrance, beguile, capture, enamor; *antonyms* (*n*) repulsion, ugliness, (*v*) repel.
- **принести** 1. fetch; *synonyms* (v) carry, bring, convey, draw, elicit, attract, catch, get, retrieve, transport, conduct, extract, earn, bear, (adj) feint, 2. bring (приносити); *synonyms* (v) fetch, put, take, reduce, afford, bestow, deliver, land, move, provide, beget, accompany, arrest, contribute, escort.
- **приниження** humiliation; *synonyms* (*n*) abasement, degradation, disgrace, chagrin, abjection, shame, comedown, discredit, dishonor, embarrassment, indignity, mortification, discomfiture, homage, disparagement; *antonym* (*n*) honor.
- **ПРИНИЖЕНО** low (низький); *synonyms* (*adj*) contemptible, abject, humble, ignoble, base, blue, common, deep, dejected, depressed, down, downcast, downhearted, (*adv*) gentle, (*n*) depression; *antonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, happy, high-pitched, loud, important, piercing, (*n*) high.
- принижувати 1. humble; *synonyms* (*adj*) base, docile, low, lowly, modest, unassuming, baseborn, (*v*) degrade, demean, disgrace, abase, debase, humiliate, mortify, conquer; *antonyms* (*adj*) grand, arrogant, conceited, haughty, imposing, impressive, pompous, snooty, 2. lower; *synonyms* (*adj*) inferior, less, (*v*) diminish, frown, humble, dip, cut, descend, drop, scowl, decrease, fall, lessen, (*n*) depress, reduce; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, raise.
- приносити 1. bring; synonyms (v) convey, fetch, bear, carry, conduct, get, put, take, reduce, afford, bestow, deliver, land, move, provide, 2. fetch; synonyms (v) bring, draw, elicit, attract, catch, retrieve, transport, extract, earn, cause, transmit, acquire, arrest, arrive, (adj) feint.
- **принц** prince; *synonyms* (*n*) monarch, potentate, duke, sovereign, king, chief, ruler, magnate.
- принцеса princess; *synonyms* (n) empress, queen, czarina, monarch, lady, darling, moppet, mopsey, noble, ruler. sultana.
- принцип 1. principle; *synonyms* (*n*) origin, fundamental, method, rule, cause, doctrine, ground, basis, dogma, element, essence, law, precept, reason, tenet, 2. fundamental; *synonyms* (*adj*) central, essential, basic, cardinal, key, rudimentary, chief, crucial, elementary,

- important, indispensable, inherent, main, (n) base, root; **antonyms** (adj) minor, (n) secondary, **3**. maxim; **synonyms** (n) axiom, aphorism, adage, apothegm, byword, motto, principle, proverb, saw, saying, canon, moral, dictum, sentence.
- **ПРИПАДОК** fit; *synonyms* (*v*) agree, accommodate, meet, suit, adapt, correspond, square, accord, dress, (*adj*) decorous, apt, applicable, appropriate, (*n*) adjust, convulsion; *antonyms* (*adj*) unfit, inappropriate, unwell.
- припасовувати adjust; *synonyms* (*v*) temper, accommodate, adapt, align, acclimatize, balance, fit, fix, reconcile, regulate, set, alter, arrange, (*adj*) dress, (*n*) square.
- припинения 1. termination; synonyms (n) ending, close, end, conclusion, result, cessation, dissolution, expiration, finale, finish, completion, abolition, issue, stop, extinction; antonym (n) start, 2. extinction; synonyms (n) destruction, extermination, obliteration, expiry, devastation, demise, effacement, extinguishing, quenching, ruin, defunctness, desolation, (v) death; antonyms (n) survival, preservation, 3. closure; synonyms (n) closing, blockade, blockage, closedown, occlusion, stoppage, plug, period, shutdown, block, recess, (v) cloture, halt; antonym (n) inauguration, 4. stop; synonyms (v) stand, delay, interrupt, obstruct, catch, disrupt, dwell, hinder, (n) hold, stay, check, arrest, bar, cease, curb; antonyms (v) continue, begin, encourage, permit, prolong.
- **ΠΡИΠИНИТИ** cease; *synonyms* (*v*) end, break, quit, stop, terminate, abstain, close, conclude, discontinue, drop, desist, expire, halt, (*n*) finish, (*adj*) abate; *antonyms* (*v*) continue, begin.
- припиняти 1. cease; *synonyms* (*v*) end, break, quit, stop, terminate, abstain, close, conclude, discontinue, drop, desist, expire, halt, (*n*) finish, (*adj*) abate; *antonyms* (*v*) continue, begin, 2. stop; *synonyms* (*v*) stand, block, delay, interrupt, obstruct, plug, catch, disrupt, (*n*) hold, stay, check, arrest, bar, cease, curb; *antonyms* (*v*) start, encourage, permit, prolong.
- припинятися cease; *synonyms* (v) end, break, quit, stop, terminate, abstain, close, conclude, discontinue, drop, desist, expire, halt, (n) finish, (adj) abate; *antonyms* (v) continue, begin.
- **ΠΡИΠИС** injunction; *synonyms* (n) behest, charge, command, dictate, bidding, commandment, direction, decree, edict, enjoining, enjoinment, instruction, order, prohibition, ban.
- **ПРИПИСАННЯ** prescription; *synonyms* (n) medicine, prescript, drug, formula, direction, order, command, medication, recipe, law, ordination, edict, receipt, (adj) precept, rule.
- **ПРИПИСУВАННЯ** prescription; *synonyms* (n) medicine, prescript, drug, formula, direction, order, command, medication, recipe, law, ordination, edict, receipt, (adj) precept, rule.
- **ΠΡИΠИСУВАТИ** refer; *synonyms* (ν) allude, apply, pertain, submit, deliver, commend, advert, impute, name, relate, invoke, adduce, ascribe, attribute, consign.
- **ПРИПРАВА** dressing; *synonyms* (*n*) bandage, bandaging, binding, fertilization, stuffing, scolding, castigation, coating, surfacing.

- припускати 1. suppose; synonyms (v) believe, guess, infer, assume, conjecture, consider, divine, estimate, imagine, presume, reckon, speculate, calculate, conceive, expect, 2. think; synonyms (v) hold, muse, ponder, reflect, regard, suppose, cogitate, contemplate, deliberate, meditate, reason, study, suspect, deem, envisage; antonym (v) forget, 3. understand; synonyms (v) interpret, recognize, catch, hear, learn, realize, see, appreciate, comprehend, construe, deduce, gather, grasp, perceive, read; antonyms (v) misinterpret, misconstrue, misunderstand, 4. imagine; synonyms (v) think, daydream, fancy, devise, envision, fantasize, visualize, image, apprehend, hypothesize, ideate, picture, pretend, project, (n) dream, 5. admit (допускати); synonyms (y) acknowledge, concede, accede, grant. affirm, confess, include, permit, take, welcome, accommodate, adjudge, avouch, (n) allow, (phr) accept; antonyms (v) deny, exclude, reject, 6. propose; synonyms (v) offer, bid, design, nominate, plan, proffer, aim, intend, mean, move, suggest, advise, advocate, introduce, (n) advance; antonym (v) withdraw.
- припустити admit (допускати); synonyms (v) acknowledge, concede, accede, grant, affirm, confess, include, permit, take, appreciate, welcome, accommodate, adjudge, (n) allow, (phr) accept; antonyms (v) deny, exclude, reject.
- припущення 1. assumption; synonyms (n) presumption, supposition, hypothesis, premise, adoption, arrogance, acceptance, belief, conclusion, conjecture, guess, idea, surmise, theory, notion, 2. admission; synonyms (n) access, acknowledgment, confession, admittance, declaration, reception, recognition, confirmation, acquiescence, affirmation, allowance, concession, entrance, entree, entry; antonym (n) denial, 3. hypothesis; synonyms (n) assumption, speculation, condition, opinion, postulation, presupposition, concept, proposal, view, thought, conception, guesswork, model, possibility, 4. guess; synonyms (v) forecast, believe, deem, divine, reckon, suppose, assume, calculate, feel, figure, foretell, gauge, infer, suspect, (n) estimate.
- **IDUDICT 1.** accession; *synonyms* (n) addition, acceptance, augmentation, increase, access, accretion, acquisition, agreement, arrival, assent, coming, entrance, increment, 2. gain; synonyms (v) acquire, benefit, derive, attain, catch, earn, get, win, achieve, advance, make, reach, (n) profit, earnings, advantage; antonyms (v) lose, (n) loss, 3. increase; synonyms (n) gain, boom, expansion, extension, growth, progress, rise, (v) accrue, extend, grow, aggrandize, expand, enhance, enlarge, (adj) augment; antonyms (n) reduction, contraction, decline, (v) decrease, reduce, diminish, drop, deteriorate, 4. growth; synonyms (n) development, evolution, enlargement, germination, accumulation, accession, improvement, bulge, growing, outgrowth, swelling, emergence, aggrandizement, buildup, crop; antonym (n) weakening.
- **природа** nature; *synonyms* (*n*) character, disposition, class, essence, creation, quality, breed, attribute, constitution, humor, manner, mettle, temperament, type, (*adj*) kind.
- **ПРИРОДЖЕНИЙ** inherent; *synonyms* (*adj*) congenital, inborn, inbred, intrinsic, essential, immanent,

- innate, instinctive, native, born, constitutional, fundamental, hereditary, inbuilt, internal; *antonym* (*adj*) superficial.
- природний 1. natural; synonyms (adj) inherent, innate, artless, instinctive, unaffected, congenital, essential, genuine, inborn, intrinsic, native, normal, crude, ingenuous, naive; antonyms (adj) artificial, affected, cultivated, false, refined, paranormal, supernatural, unnatural, 2. indigenous; synonyms (adj) aboriginal, autochthonous, domestic, endemic, vernacular, autochthonal, autochthonic.
- природно naturally; *synonyms* (*adv*) course, innately, obviously, spontaneously, unaffectedly, openly, (*int*) certainly; *antonyms* (*adv*) unnaturally, artificially.
- IIPUPY JATU 1. charm; synonyms (n) allure, amulet, appeal, spell, attraction, conjure, (v) attract, captivate, bewitch, fascinate, enchant, entrance, beguile, capture, enamor; antonyms (n) repulsion, ugliness, (v) repel, 2. gentle; synonyms (adj) clement, calm, easy, friendly, soft, affable, balmy, kind, mild, tame, feeble, amiable, benign, bland, (n) benevolent; antonyms (adj) caustic, cruel, fierce, harsh, loud, violent, rough, abrupt, hardhearted, heavy, sarcastic, sheer, steep.
- приручений gentle; *synonyms* (*adj*) clement, calm, easy, friendly, soft, affable, balmy, kind, mild, tame, feeble, amiable, benign, bland, (*n*) benevolent; *antonyms* (*adj*) caustic, cruel, fierce, harsh, loud, violent, rough, abrupt, hardhearted, heavy, sarcastic, sheer, steep.
- ПРИСВОСНИЙ assumed; synonyms (adj) false, sham, affected, counterfeit, fake, feigned, fictitious, pretended, reputed, artificial, alleged, assumptive, hypothetical, phony, spurious.
- IIPHCBATA 1. dedication; synonyms (n) consecration, allegiance, commitment, devotion, inscription, loyalty, fidelity, sanctification, fanaticism, passion, (adj) glorification; antonym (n) indifference, 2. devotion; synonyms (n) adoration, attachment, dedication, worship, affection, constancy, devotedness, enthusiasm, fondness, love, piety, reverence, zeal, deference, (adj) veneration; antonym (n) disloyalty.
- присвячений 1. devoted; synonyms (adj) addicted, affectionate, ardent, consecrated, constant, faithful, fond, loyal, pious, committed, dutiful, eager, enthusiastic, keen, (prep) dedicated; antonyms (adj) uncommitted, disloyal, indifferent, 2. dedicated; synonyms (adj) consecrate, devoted, sacred, zealous, fervent, holy, passionate, steadfast, unwavering, (prep) dedicate; antonym (adj) desecrated.
- **ПРИСВЯЧЕННЯ** dedication; *synonyms* (*n*) consecration, allegiance, commitment, devotion, inscription, loyalty, fidelity, sanctification, fanaticism, passion, (*adj*) glorification; *antonym* (*n*) indifference.
- прискорення acceleration; synonyms (n) speed, rapidity, rise, quickening, quickness, rush, speedup, swiftness
- **ΠΡИСКОРЮВАТИ** anticipate; *synonyms* (*v*) antedate, expect, forecast, forestall, foretell, think, calculate, estimate, apprehend, divine, guess, predict, presume, prevent, intercept.
- **прислів'я** saying; *synonyms* (*v*) proverb, (*n*) maxim, axiom, adage, saw, phrase, aphorism, byword, dictum,

- expression, idiom, motto, locution, apothegm, declaration.
- ITPHC.T.YFOBYBATH 1. attend; synonyms (v) accompany, assist, escort, serve, advert, aid, conduct, follow, hear, help, listen, look, minister, (n) tend, doctor,
   2. page; synonyms (n) attendant, footboy, usher, note, pageboy, varlet, context, donzel, (v) paginate, summon.
- присмак 1. flavour; *synonyms* (*n*) aroma, savor, smell, feel, feeling, relish, sapidity, savour, smack, tang, taste, tone, (*v*) flavor, season, 2. odour; *synonyms* (*n*) fragrance, flavour, odor, scent, look, olfaction, smelling, spirit.
- **ΠΡ**Μ̄CΠΙΒ 1. burden; *synonyms* (n) load, anxiety, pack, strain, bale, care, cargo, concern, core, (v) bother, weight, burthen, clog, trouble, afflict; *antonyms* (v) relieve, unburden, 2. bob; *synonyms* (n) shilling, jump, (v) curtsy, dock, bow, toss, dip, bend, bounce, cut, jiggle, reel, tail, tap, trim.
- **ПРИСТОЙНИЙ 1.** decent; *synonyms* (*adj*) proper, adequate, appropriate, acceptable, becoming, comely, decorous, honest, modest, respectable, right, seemly, sufficient, chaste, ethical; *antonyms* (*adj*) immoral, unwholesome, inappropriate, disreputable, filthy, inadequate, indecent, unsuitable, **2.** proper; *synonyms* (*adj*) correct, due, decent, fit, just, agreeable, apt, befitting, fitting, legitimate, suitable, neat, exact, fair, formal; *antonyms* (*adj*) improper, unseemly, wrong, rude
- **ПРИСТОСОВАНИЙ** fit; *synonyms* (*v*) agree, accommodate, meet, suit, adapt, correspond, square, accord, dress, (*adj*) decorous, apt, applicable, appropriate, (*n*) adjust, convulsion; *antonyms* (*adj*) unfit, inappropriate, unwell.
- пристосовувати 1. adapt; synonyms (v) adjust, accommodate, acclimate, fashion, alter, arrange, assimilate, change, edit, familiarize, gear, modify, shape, suit, (adj) fit, 2. accommodate; synonyms (v) adapt, oblige, contain, hold, lodge, provide, quarter, reconcile, supply, harmonise, admit, conciliate, conform, furnish, gratify; antonym (v) evict, 3. adjust; synonyms (v) temper, align, acclimatize, balance, fix, regulate, set, compose, coordinate, dispose, harmonize, order, prepare, (adj) dress, (n) square, 4. fit; synonyms (v) agree, meet, correspond, accord, befit, (adj) decorous, apt, applicable, appropriate, becoming, decent, good, (n) convulsion, attack, burst; antonyms (adj) unfit, inappropriate, unwell, 5. arrange; synonyms (v) appoint, settle, pack, classify, decorate, do, engineer, put, straighten, display, design, distribute, file, form, (n) array; antonyms (v) disturb, disarrange, 6. conform; synonyms (v) observe, acquiesce, comply, follow, frame, obey, answer, fulfill, assent, integrate; antonyms (v) deviate, differ.
- **πρистосовуватися 1**. adapt; *synonyms* (*v*) adjust, accommodate, acclimate, fashion, alter, arrange, assimilate, change, edit, familiarize, gear, modify, shape, suit, (adj) fit, **2**. conform; *synonyms* (*v*) adapt, agree, accord, observe, acquiesce, comply, follow, frame, obey, square, answer, fulfill, assent, correspond, reconcile; *antonyms* (*v*) deviate, differ.
- **пристосування** 1. accommodation; *synonyms* (*n*) adjustment, compromise, loan, lodging, adaptation,

- agreement, apartment, appeasement, convenience, ease, facility, fitting, housing, (v) advance, (adj) adaption,  $\mathbf{2}$ . arrangement; synonyms (n) order, settlement, array, classification, contract, design, distribution, method, plan, sequence, system, accommodation, appointment, accord, composition,  $\mathbf{3}$ . adaptation; synonyms (n) alteration, version, reworking, conversion, fitness, modification, variation.
- **ПРИСТОСУВАТИ** adapt; *synonyms* (v) adjust, accommodate, acclimate, fashion, alter, arrange, assimilate, change, edit, familiarize, gear, modify, shape, suit, (adj) fit.
- **ПРИСТРАСНИЙ** passionate; *synonyms* (*adj*) ardent, hot, angry, animated, burning, excited, fervent, fierce, earnest, amorous, eager, enthusiastic, excitable, (*adv*) fiery, (*v*) impetuous; *antonyms* (*adj*) apathetic, indifferent, mild, passionless.
- пристрасть 1. desire; synonyms (n) ambition, hope, aspiration, will, wish, craving, dream, impulse, (v) fancy, aspire, seek, want, aim, choose, crave; antonyms (n) aversion, reality, (v) dislike, hate, 2. passion; synonyms (n) fury, affection, feeling, fervor, fire, love, anger, desire, enthusiasm, heat, mania, rage, fondness, ire, (v) ardor; *antonyms* (n) apathy, indifference, 3. weakness; synonyms (n) debility, defect, failing, fault, deficiency, feebleness, fragility, imperfection, flaw, frailty, inadequacy, blemish, predilection, (adj) infirmity, foible; antonyms (n) strength, power, advantage, brightness, determination, intensity, supremacy, 4. bias; synonyms (n) penchant, drift, influence, turn, twist, favor, slope, angle, bigotry, (v) prejudice, bent, slant, dispose, (adj) partiality, diagonal; antonyms (n) impartiality, neutrality, fairness.
- **IIPMCTPIЙ 1.** arrangement; *synonyms* (*n*) agreement, order, settlement, adjustment, array, classification, contract, design, distribution, method, plan, sequence, system, accommodation, appointment, **2.** device; *synonyms* (*n*) contrivance, apparatus, appliance, artifice, emblem, contraption, figure, gimmick, invention, trick, way, dodge, expedient, implement, instrument.
- **ΠΡΗCTYΠ 1.** access (Доступ); synonyms (n) admission, approach, entrance, entry, admittance, entree, gate, attack, doorway, entryway, fit, opening, outburst, passage, (v) enter; antonym (n) exit, 2. attack; synonyms (n) incursion, thrust, aggression, onset, onslaught, seizure, (v) assault, assail, attempt, aggress, charge, invade, raid, accuse, affect; antonyms (n) defense, (v) defend, protect, retreat.
- **ПРИСУДЖЕННЯ** award; *synonyms* (n) judgment, accolade, decoration, medal, prize, (v) accord, grant, bestow, confer, honor, present, assign, give, allow, allot.
- **ПРИСУДЖУВАТИ** award; *synonyms* (*n*) judgment, accolade, decoration, medal, prize, (*v*) accord, grant, bestow, confer, honor, present, assign, give, allow, allot.
- присутній present; synonyms (adj) grant, confer, (n) gift, donation, (v) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; antonyms (adj) missing, (n) past, future, history, (v) withdraw, (adv) absent.
- **присутність 1**. presence; *synonyms* (*n*) appearance, front, attendance, bearing, manner, mien, carriage, air,

- comportment, figure, demeanor, company, aspect, look, (adj) breeding; antonyms (n) absence, nonattendance, 2. attendance; synonyms (n) presence, attending, audience, turnout, hearing, tendance, attendancy, bodyguard, crowd, gallery, tendment, assemblage, assembly, congregation, draw.
- присяга oath; synonyms (n) curse, expletive, malediction, affidavit, cuss, pledge, promise, swearing, assurance, adjuration, asseveration, blasphemy, agreement, sacrament, swearword.
- **ПРИСЯЖНІ** jury; *synonyms* (n) board, panel, adjudicators, group, team, council, venire.
- притаманний intrinsic; synonyms (adj) inherent, immanent, inborn, internal, constitutional, essential, integral, intimate, intrinsical, native, peculiar, interior, fundamental, instinctive, innate; antonym (adj) extrinsic.
- притулок 1. refuge; synonyms (n) protection, asylum, sanctuary, resort, retreat, safety, cover, haven, shelter, harbor, hideaway, hideout, covert, (v) recourse, haunt, 2. shelter; synonyms (n) guard, refuge, protect, security, shield, hut, shade, lee, lodge, burrow, (v) screen, defend, hide, keep, (adj) defense; antonym (v) expose, 3. asylum; synonyms (n) home, institution, madhouse, 4. sanctuary; synonyms (n) shrine, reservation, chancel, church, port, temple, altar, bema, 5. accommodation; synonyms (n) adjustment, compromise, loan, lodging, adaptation, agreement, apartment, appeasement, convenience, ease, facility, fitting, housing, (v) advance, (adj) adaption, 6. port; synonyms (n) carriage, demeanor, pier, mien, bearing, deportment, dock, embrasure, gate, harbour, interface, wharf, entrance, (adj) larboard, left; antonym (n) starboard, 7. roof; synonyms (n) crown, ceiling, dome, back, house, (v) top.
- **IPUTYJISTUCS** lean; *synonyms* (*adj*) emaciated, gaunt, thin, bony, lank, lanky, (*v*) incline, bend, list, slant, bow, careen, pitch, (*n*) tilt, inclination; *antonyms* (*adj*) fat, plump.
- **IIPUTYIIJITU** damp; *synonyms* (*adj*) moist, muggy, clammy, cool, dank, humid, (*v*) break, check, chill, deaden, benumb, (*n*) wet, dampness, moisture, clamminess; *antonyms* (*adj*) dry, (*n*) dryness.
- **ПРИТЯГАЛЬНИЙ** attractive; *synonyms* (adj) alluring, amiable, appealing, charming, engaging, good-looking, tempting, adorable, delightful, enchanting, fascinating, glamorous, gorgeous, handsome, interesting; *antonyms* (adj) unattractive, ugly, unappealing, disgusting, repellent, revolting, repulsive, straight, unpleasant.
- **ΠΡИΤЯГАННЯ** attraction; *synonyms* (n) allure, enticement, invitation, affinity, allurement, appeal, charm, lure, attractiveness, bait, draw, fascination, inducement, magnetism, temptation; *antonyms* (n) repulsion, disgust, revulsion.
- ΠΡИΤЯΓΑΤИ attract; synonyms (v) fascinate, charm, beguile, captivate, draw, enamor, entice, invite, tempt, arrest, absorb, appeal, attach, beckon, (adj) allure; antonyms (v) repel, disgust.
- притягувати attract; synonyms (v) fascinate, charm, beguile, captivate, draw, enamor, entice, invite, tempt, arrest, absorb, appeal, attach, beckon, (adj) allure; antonyms (v) repel, disgust.

- прихильний 1. favourable; synonyms (adj) advantageous, auspicious, encouraging, favorable, lucky, opportune, prosperous, comfortable, easy, booming, flourishing, golden, halcyon, prospering, roaring, 2. friendly; synonyms (adj) amiable, affectionate, amicable, benevolent, companionable, convivial, decent, good-natured, kind, complaisant, approachable, accommodating, affable, close, familiar; antonyms (adj) hostile, unfriendly, aggressive, aloof, disagreeable, distant, formal, bad-tempered, belligerent, curt, frosty, reserved.
- **ПРИХИЛЬНИК 1**. lover; *synonyms* (*n*) dear, darling, beau, devotee, fan, admirer, buff, love, beloved, amorist, man, pet, sweetheart, gallant, boyfriend, **2**. supporter; *synonyms* (*n*) partisan, ally, backer, follower, friend, patron, sponsor, advocate, believer, benefactor, champion, disciple, help, helper, protagonist; *antonyms* (*n*) opponent, skeptic, detractor, critic.
- прихильність 1. affection; synonyms (n) affect, charity, attachment, fondness, affectionateness, disease, feeling, heart, kindness, liking, love, tenderness, admiration, care, (v) regard; antonym (n) hatred, 2. bias; synonyms (n) penchant, drift, influence, turn, twist, favor, slope, angle, bigotry, (v) prejudice, bent, slant, dispose, (adj) partiality, diagonal; antonyms (n) impartiality, neutrality, fairness, 3. attachment; synonyms (n) affection, appendix, accessory, addition, adherence, appendage, association, bond, connection, devotion, fitting, link, tie, annex, addendum; antonym (n) detachment, 4. favour; synonyms (v) choose, prefer, privilege, 5. sympathy; synonyms (n) compassion, pity, benevolence, commiseration, humanity, mercy, rapport, understanding, agreement, clemency, comfort, compatibility, empathy, condolence, (adj) cordiality; antonyms (n) indifference, cruelty.
- IIPUXIJI advent; synonyms (n) coming, arrival, appearance, approach, emergence, entrance; antonym (n) departure.
- прихований 1. latent; synonyms (adj) covert, potential, secret, dormant, hidden, inactive, possible, smoldering; antonym (adj) active, 2. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, (v) compact, stop, conclude, (adv) by, about, (n) end, finish, conclusion; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open, start, 3. hidden; synonyms (adj) clandestine, concealed, obscure, dark, latent, arcane, buried, confidential, covered, deep, disguised, invisible, masked, mysterious, underground; antonyms (adj) obvious, exposed, noticeable, overt, revealing.
- приховувати 1. conceal; *synonyms* (*v*) cover, disguise, hide, bury, cloak, mask, obscure, screen, shield, smother, suppress, cloud, ensconce, muffle, (*n*) veil; *antonyms* (*v*) reveal, show, expose, divulge, clarify, uncover, 2. hide; *synonyms* (*v*) conceal, shelter, ambush, camouflage, dissemble, enshroud, envelop, (*n*) fur, coat, fell, skin, bark, fleece, pelt, (*adj*) darken; *antonym* (*v*) express.
- приходити 1. come; *synonyms* (*v*) approach, become, aggregate, appear, arise, arrive, fall, befall, amount, descend, get, go, hail, number, originate; *antonym* (*v*) leave, 2. arrive (прибувати); *synonyms* (*v*) come, mature, attain, land, reach, succeed, show, derive,

- emerge, enter, happen, issue, prosper, disembark; *antonym* (*v*) depart.
- **ΠΡИЦІЛЮВАТИСЯ** aim; *synonyms* (*n*) intent, objective, plan, target, design, intention, meaning, (*v*) purpose, direct, object, point, address, endeavor, aspire, propose.
- **ПРИЧАСТЯ** communion; *synonyms* (*n*) association, communication, denomination, intercourse, alliance, faction, fellowship, sharing, traffic, conversation, prayer.
- причетність implication; *synonyms* (n) allusion, hint, significance, consequence, deduction, entailment, import, innuendo, meaning, sense, suggestion, purport, complicity, corollary, (*adj*) complication.
- причина 1. reason; synonyms (n) mind, account, intellect, occasion, argument, object, purpose, rationality, understanding, basis, (v) cause, argue, debate, conclude, deduce, 2. cause; synonyms (n) case, action, campaign, excuse, lawsuit, (v) make, breed, do, induce, allow, arouse, beget, bring, engender, inspire; antonym (n) consequence, 3. ground; synonyms (n) base, land, floor, reason, dirt, field, soil, country, footing, foundation, (v) bottom, found, establish, fix, rest; antonym (n) ceiling.
- причинний causal; synonyms (adj) causative, original, causing, fundamental, basic, contributing, contributory, core, essential, main, (adv) accordingly, closer, congruity, consequently, logical.
- **ПРИШЕСТЯ** coming; *synonyms* (*v*) instant, (*adj*) approaching, forthcoming, future, imminent, impending, following, (*n*) access, advent, approach, appearance, arrival, return, arrive, come; *antonym* (*n*) departure.
- прищик spot; *synonyms* (n) blot, place, speck, stain, dot, dapple, dirty, location, mark, (v) blemish, soil, fleck, speckle, daub, flaw.
- **ПРИЯЗНИЙ** friendly; synonyms (adj) amiable, favorable, affectionate, amicable, benevolent, companionable, convivial, decent, good-natured, kind, complaisant, approachable, accommodating, affable, close; antonyms (adj) hostile, unfriendly, aggressive, aloof, disagreeable, distant, formal, bad-tempered, belligerent, curt, frosty, reserved.
- **приятель 1**. friend; *synonyms* (*n*) fellow, acquaintance, ally, colleague, crony, advocate, assistant, booster, buddy, mate, connection, wellwisher, (*adj*) associate, companion, comrade; *antonyms* (*n*) enemy, foe, stranger, rival, **2**. pal; *synonyms* (*n*) friend, brother, chum, partner, sidekick, confidant, intimate, (*v*) consort.
- прізвище name; *synonyms* (*n*) call, title, epithet, address, appellation, (*v*) appoint, baptize, describe, cite, designate, entitle, enumerate, identify, list, mention.
- IIPIOP prior; synonyms (adj) former, preceding, anterior, earlier, foregoing, past, previous, preliminary, advance, antecedent, before, introductory, (n) abbot, cenobite, conventual; antonym (adj) subsequent.
- пріоритет priority; *synonyms* (n) precedence, antecedence, antecedency, anteriority, precedency, preference, rank, superiority, supremacy.
- **IIPIPBA** gulf; *synonyms* (*n*) abyss, chasm, bay, cove, abysm, inlet, pit, ravine, rift, hollow.
- **ПРІСНИЙ** fresh; *synonyms* (*adj*) bracing, brisk, clean, novel, bright, original, recent, airy, bold, alive, chilly,

- cool, forward, green, (adv) new; antonyms (adj) old, stale, decayed, exhausted, hot, humid, muggy, musty, off, oppressive, rotten, tired, worn, dry, sweltering.
- **mpo 1.** about; synonyms (prep) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, (adv) around, approximately, almost, nearly, most, roughly, in, nearby, (adj) some, near; antonyms (prep) exactly, precisely, 2. on; synonyms (prep) at, about, by, into, upon, above, over, regarding, (adv) forth, ahead, onward, (adj) forward, aboard, (prf) along, against; antonym (adv) off.
- IIPOBA 1. trial; synonyms (n) test, examination, experiment, affliction, essay, hardship, hearing, adversity, audition, attempt, difficulty, distress, effort, endeavor, (adj) experimental, 2. taste; synonyms (n) bit, flavor, liking, morsel, penchant, appetite, drink, drop, fondness, gusto, (v) relish, savor, sample, smack, discernment; antonyms (n) dislike, tastelessness, 3. sample; synonyms (n) example, instance, specimen, model, pattern, assay, case, illustration, exemplar, design, piece, precedent, (v) taste, try, prove.
- **пробачати** forgive; *synonyms* (*v*) condone, absolve, excuse, acquit, pardon, remit, exonerate, justify, clear, overlook.
- **IIPOБAЧЕННЯ 1.** excuse; *synonyms* (*n*) apology, alibi, evasion, palliate, pretext, color, (*v*) pardon, absolve, acquit, condone, exculpate, forgive, justify, apologise, apologize; *antonym* (*v*) punish, **2.** pardon; *synonyms* (*n*) amnesty, forgiveness, grace, remission, reprieve, (*v*) excuse, exonerate, spare, absolution, acquittal, discharge, remit, pity, release, (*adj*) clear; *antonym* (*v*) blame.
- **IIPOБAЧИТИ 1.** excuse; *synonyms* (*n*) apology, alibi, evasion, palliate, pretext, color, (*v*) pardon, absolve, acquit, condone, exculpate, forgive, justify, apologise, apologize; *antonym* (*v*) punish, **2.** pardon; *synonyms* (*n*) amnesty, forgiveness, grace, remission, reprieve, (*v*) excuse, exonerate, spare, absolution, acquittal, discharge, remit, pity, release, (*adj*) clear; *antonym* (*v*)
- IIPOBIJ gap; synonyms (n) break, cleft, crack, crevice, fissure, aperture, chasm, clearance, difference, fracture, opening, vacancy, blank, chink, (v) breach.
- IIPOSIPKA proof; synonyms (n) confirmation, demonstration, probation, argument, authentication, evidence, sign, substantiation, validation, verification, experiment, indication, essay, criterion, establishment.
- **προδκα** tap; *synonyms* (n) pat, dab, hit, bang, strike, stroke, touch, blow, (v) knock, rap, broach, bug, beat, eavesdrop, exploit.
- проблема 1. problem; synonyms (n) bother, conundrum, difficulty, trouble, knot, enigma, job, matter, riddle, case, poser, dilemma, issue, puzzle, (v) question, 2. question; synonyms (n) inquiry, challenge, demand, problem, (v) doubt, query, distrust, inquire, interrogate, investigate, contest, dispute, examine, enquire, mistrust; antonyms (n) certainty, (v) answer.
- проблематичний problematic; synonyms (adj) dubious, debatable, difficult, doubtful, moot, knotty, questionable, troublesome, unsettled, disputable, fishy, problematical, uncertain, baffling, complicated; antonyms (adj) easy, simple, straightforward.

- **ПРОБЛИСК 1.** glimpse; *synonyms* (*n*) glance, look, peek, peep, view, (*v*) blink, see, espy, notice, spot, spy, discover, **2.** ray; *synonyms* (*n*) beam, light, flash, glow, gleam, glimmer, brightness, irradiation, shaft, skate, streak, flicker, (*v*) irradiate, radiate.
- пробний tentative; synonyms (adj) doubtful, experimental, provisional, probationary, trial, exploratory, shy, cautious, conditional, hesitant, indecisive, indefinite, provisionary, undecided; antonyms (adj) definite, sure.
- **пробувати 1.** try; *synonyms* (v) attempt, test, struggle, prove, strive, assay, examine, experiment, judge, sample, (n) endeavor, essay, chance, effort, shot, **2.** offer; *synonyms* (v) give, bestow, put, advance, extend, impart, introduce, perform, propose, tender, lay, (n) bid, proposal, go, proposition; *antonyms* (v) withdraw, refuse, **3.** prove; *synonyms* (v) demonstrate, attest, confirm, manifest, establish, evidence, show, approve, assert, authenticate, check, corroborate, evince, try, verify; *antonym* (v) disprove, **4.** sample; *synonyms* (n) example, instance, specimen, model, pattern, case, illustration, exemplar, design, piece, precedent, representative, (v) taste, sip, (adj) trial.
- **ПРОБУДЖУВАТИ** awake; *synonyms* (*adj*) alive, alert, attentive, conscious, aware, intelligent, keen, sleepless, (*v*) arouse, wake, awaken, waken, rouse, stimulate, stir; *antonyms* (*adj*) asleep, unconscious, comatose, sleeping, sleepy.
- провал failure; synonyms (n) bankruptcy, failing, breakdown, decline, deficiency, debacle, defeat, disappointment, disaster, downfall, error, loser, loss, abortion, default; antonyms (n) success, achievement, hit, winner, victory, achiever, attainment, capability, growth.
- провалитися fail; synonyms (v) abort, collapse, fade, cease, abandon, break, bust, default, deteriorate, die, disappoint, flag, want, (adj) decline, drop; antonyms (v) succeed, triumph.
- **IIPOBECTU** conduct; *synonyms* (*n*) behavior, administration, manage, demeanor, lead, performance, (*v*) act, bring, direct, administer, carriage, acquit, bearing, carry, comport.
- провина 1. guilt; synonyms (n) blame, criminality, sin, fault, remorse, repentance, complicity, responsibility, guiltiness, shame; antonyms (n) innocence, blamelessness, 2. fault; synonyms (n) defect, blemish, error, failing, blot, crime, delinquency, flaw, blunder, break, demerit, weakness, default, (v) deficiency, culpability; antonyms (n) merit, strength, 3. offence; synonyms (n) guilt, infraction, infringement, misdemeanor, misdemeanour, offense, assault, offensive, umbrage, violation, discourtesy.
- провід wire; *synonyms* (*n*) cable, telegram, line, rope, cord, string, thread, flex, guy, halser, hawser, marconigram, moorings, (*v*) telegraph, electrify.
- провідний 1. principal; synonyms (adj) master, cardinal, capital, leading, primary, grand, first, foremost, prime, great, (n) chief, head, leader, main, manager; antonym (adj) minor, 2. leading; synonyms (adj) outstanding, dominant, principal, best, central, major, paramount,

- prominent, star, top, key, essential, (n) lead, leadership, (adv) ahead.
- провідник 1. guide; synonyms (n) escort, directory, attendant, control, usher, chief, (v) direct, conduct, govern, drive, channel, bring, advise, cicerone, convey; antonym (v) follow, 2. conductor; synonyms (n) leader, director, chauffeur, commander, manager, pilot, ringleader, core, (v) guard, guide; antonym (n) insulator.
- **ПРОВІНЦІ**АЛЬНИЙ provincial; *synonyms* (*adj*) local, country, insular, parochial, unsophisticated, narrow, rural, (*n*) bucolic, peasant, rustic, churl; *antonym* (*adj*) cosmopolitan.
- **ПРОВІНЦІЙНИЙ** provincial; *synonyms* (*adj*) local, country, insular, parochial, unsophisticated, narrow, rural, (*n*) bucolic, peasant, rustic, churl; *antonym* (*adj*) cosmopolitan.
- провінція 1. province; synonyms (n) country, district, field, county, land, domain, region, colony, duty, area, function, line, sphere, territory, (v) department, 2. country; synonyms (n) state, nation, home, commonwealth, kingdom, place, realm, soil, nationality, province, terrain, (adj) rural, rustic, public, provincial; antonyms (n) city, (adj) urban.
- **IIPOBITPIOBATU 1.** wind (Bitep); *synonyms* (n) air, gust, (v) coil, twist, curl, meander, turn, bend, curve, twine, blow, crook, entwine, roll, weave, **2**. air; *synonyms* (n) tune, appearance, manner, atmosphere, look, melody, strain, face, (v) ventilate, broadcast, show, transmit, vent, weather, aerate.
- IIPOBIЩATU predict; synonyms (v) anticipate, augur, forecast, foresee, foretell, portend, bode, divine, forebode, foreshadow, foreshow, presage, expect, herald, betoken.
- **Проводжати** shepherd; *synonyms* (*n*) pastor, clergyman, minister, sheepherder, sheepman, priest, presbyter, churchman, divine, ecclesiastic, (*v*) conduct, guide, lead, guard, cowherd.
- проводити 1. conduct; synonyms (n) behavior, administration, manage, demeanor, lead, performance, (v) act, bring, direct, administer, carriage, acquit, bearing, carry, comport, 2. accompany; synonyms (v) attend, follow, associate, companion, company, guide, walk, consort, concur, conduct, convoy, join, take, (n) escort, 3. lead (свинець); synonyms (v) head, contribute, chair, conduce, control, go, govern, convey, give, command, dispose, (n) clue, advantage, hint, (adj) front.
- Провулок lane; synonyms (n) course, alley, road, aisle, avenue, passage, path, track, way, line, artery, passageway, pathway, route, street.
- прогалина 1. gap; synonyms (n) break, cleft, crack, crevice, fissure, aperture, chasm, clearance, difference, fracture, opening, vacancy, blank, chink, (v) breach, 2. blank; synonyms (adj) bare, empty, unfilled, clean, vacant, deadpan, dull, expressionless, impassive, inexpressive, (n) space, form, emptiness, gap, hiatus; antonyms (adj) animated, full, expressive.
- ΠΡΟΓΑΗЯΤИ chase; synonyms (n) game, search, quest, (v) hunt, pursue, expel, follow, stalk, track, trail, chamfer, pursuit, race, seek, evict.

- **ПРОГНИЛИЙ** rotten; *synonyms* (*adj*) bad, foul, poor, fetid, lousy, musty, off, putrid, ill, shabby, corrupt, crappy, decomposed, (v) decayed, rancid; *antonym* (*adj*) fresh
- **ΠΡΟΓΗΟ3 1.** forecast; *synonyms* (n) calculation, forecasting, forethought, (ν) presage, anticipate, augur, calculate, portend, bode, estimate, figure, forebode, foretell, predict, prognosticate, **2**. calculation; *synonyms* (n) reckoning, account, analysis, arithmetic, computation, deliberation, discretion, forecast, anticipation, projection, count, expectation, figuring, (ν) estimation, (*adi*) circumspection.
- **ΠΡΟΓΟ JOHIEHHЯ** saying; *synonyms* (*v*) proverb, (*n*) maxim, axiom, adage, saw, phrase, aphorism, byword, dictum, expression, idiom, motto, locution, apothegm, declaration.
- IIPOFOJIOHIYBATU 1. declare; synonyms (v) announce, advertise, affirm, allege, assert, say, attest, acknowledge, admit, aver, avow, proclaim, call, divulge, (adj) communicate; antonym (v) deny, 2. announce; synonyms (v) herald, declare, enunciate, return, annunciate, broadcast, foretell, intimate, promulgate, publicize, publish, report, reveal, tell, cry.
- **ΠΡΟΓΡΑΒΑΤИ** lose; *synonyms* (ν) drop, forfeit, mislay, sacrifice, fail, clear, hurt, regress, retrogress, destroy, misplace, recede, suffer, waste, escape; *antonyms* (ν) gain, find, acquire, earn, get, obtain, recover, secure, win, beat, defeat, keep, succeed.
- **ΠΡΟΓΡΑΒΑϤ** player; *synonyms* (n) musician, actor, participant, contestant, histrion, instrumentalist, performer, thespian, artiste, competitor, artist, athlete, entrant.
- Inporpama 1. programme; synonyms (n) design, broadcast, plan, platform, curriculum, class, course, forecast, preface, programma, (v) program, 2. syllabus; synonyms (n) conspectus, synopsis, schedule, summary, compendium, epitome, outlines, prospectus, 3. program; synonyms (n) agenda, scheme, bill, routine, show, proposal, calendar, idea, performance, syllabus, list, route, (v) programme, condition, 4. card; synonyms (n) board, ticket, label, carte, menu, notice, placard, postal, scorecard, wit, (v) tease, 5. bill; synonyms (n) account, beak, advertisement, card, invoice, poster, receipt, act, banknote, check, measure, reckoning, score, (v) advertise, charge.
- програмувати program; *synonyms* (n) agenda, plan, broadcast, design, scheme, course, bill, curriculum, platform, routine, show, proposal, calendar, (v) schedule, programme.
- **προΓρec 1.** progress; *synonyms* (n) headway, improvement, furtherance, betterment, gain, course, advancement, development, growth, increase, (ν) advance, proceed, continue, develop, go; *antonyms* (n) decline, deterioration, (ν) regress, **2.** advancement; *synonyms* (n) promotion, upgrade, cultivation, elevation, progress, progression, profit, exaltation, movement, raise, rise, upgrading, **3.** advance; *synonyms* (n) loan, push, (ν) further, promote, approach, encourage, boost, contribute, cultivate, forward, grow, improve, lend, offer, (phr) accelerate; *antonyms* (ν) retreat, recede, delay, demote.

- **прогресивний** progressive; *synonyms* (*adj*) advanced, forward, gradual, active, radical, consecutive, modern, revolutionary, positive, alphabetical, avant-garde, broad, broad-minded, (*n*) liberal, imperfect; *antonyms* (*adj*) old-fashioned, traditional, (*n*) conservative.
- **προΓρεсуΒΑΤИ** progress; synonyms (n) headway, improvement, furtherance, betterment, gain, course, advancement, development, growth, increase, (ν) advance, proceed, continue, develop, go; antonyms (n) decline, deterioration, (ν) regress.
- ПРОГРЕСУЮЧИЙ progressive; synonyms (adj) advanced, forward, gradual, active, radical, consecutive, modern, revolutionary, positive, alphabetical, avantgarde, broad, broad-minded, (n) liberal, imperfect; antonyms (adj) old-fashioned, traditional, (n) conservative.
- прогулянка 1. walk (ходити); synonyms (v) ramble, course, hike, move, roam, travel, trek, go, (n) step, gait, pace, path, saunter, stroll, excursion, 2. walking; synonyms (v) careless, current, excelling, passant, surpassing, (adj) moving, active, ambulant, ambulative, gradient, (n) walk, traveling, paseo, pass, (adv) afoot, 3. ride; synonyms (n) outing, run, lift, jaunt, voyage, (v) drive, bait, float, mount, rag, tease, harass, annoy, drift, (add) bestride
- продавати 1. sell; *synonyms* (*v*) peddle, deal, handle, betray, give, promote, deceive, exchange, merchandise, realize, trade, vend, clear, gammon, (*n*) cheat; *antonym* (*v*) buy, 2. market; *synonyms* (*n*) fair, shop, bazaar, marketplace, mart, outlet, store, clientele, grocery, (*v*) demand, sell, commercialize, sale, traffic, 3. realize; *synonyms* (*v*) fulfill, achieve, perform, discover, attain, accomplish, appreciate, complete, execute, know, make, recognize, sense, obtain, effect.
- ПРОДАВАТИСЯ sell (продавати); synonyms (v) peddle, deal, handle, betray, give, promote, deceive, exchange, merchandise, realize, trade, vend, clear, gammon, (n) cheat; antonym (v) buy.
- **продавець 1**. vendor; *synonyms* (*n*) seller, dealer, vender, merchant, trafficker, supplier; *antonym* (*n*) buyer, **2**. seller; *synonyms* (*n*) vendor, trader; *antonym* (*n*) purchaser.
- продаж 1. sale; *synonyms* (n) fair, disposal, demand, market, vend, vendition, outlet, carnival, contract, dealings, emission, escape, festival, fête, (adj) cheap, 2. market; *synonyms* (n) shop, bazaar, marketplace, trade, mart, store, clientele, grocery, (v) sell, commercialize, exchange, handle, merchandise, sale, traffic, 3. realization; *synonyms* (n) execution, accomplishment, awareness, comprehension, fulfillment, implementation, actualization, fruition, realisation, completion, grasp, achievement, actualisation, attainment, consummation.
- продажність corruption; synonyms (n) contamination, depravity, adulteration, pollution, bribery, filth, infection, taint, vitiation, canker, blight, foulness, impurity, contagion, (adj) shuffle; antonyms (n) purification, decency, honesty, incorruptness.
- продати sell (продавати); synonyms (v) peddle, deal, handle, betray, give, promote, deceive, exchange, merchandise, realize, trade, vend, clear, gammon, (n) cheat; antonym (v) buy.

- продовження 1. continuation; *synonyms* (n) continuance, sequel, resumption, maintenance, elongation, postscript, duration, extension, supplement; *antonyms* (n) discontinuance, end, 2. extension; *synonyms* (n) continuation, augmentation, enlargement, expansion, addition, increase, annex, expanse, stretch, development, amplification, annexe, circulation, dissemination, growth; *antonyms* (n) limitation, contraction, limit.
- **ПРОДОВЖИТИ** continue; *synonyms* (*v*) abide, remain, endure, keep, persevere, sustain, bide, be, extend, last, maintain, persist, preserve, (*n*) hold, (*adj*) prolong; *antonyms* (*v*) stop, end, cease, discontinue.
- продовжувати 1. continue; synonyms (v) abide, remain, endure, keep, persevere, sustain, bide, be, extend, last, maintain, persist, preserve, (n) hold, (adj) prolong; antonyms (v) stop, end, cease, discontinue, 2. proceed; synonyms (v) go, advance, move, pass, originate, ensue, run, flow, arise, continue, emanate, happen, issue, operate, progress, 3. carry; synonyms (v) bear, bring, convey, conduct, take, acquit, behave, accept, comport, pack, transport, load, assume, admit, adopt, 4. resume; synonyms (v) recover, regain, restart, summarize, outline, revert, renew, retake, (n) digest, synopsis, abstract, summary, epitome, recapitulation, review, 5. pursue; synonyms (v) chase, follow, dog, hunt, prosecute, course, haunt, hound, stalk, tail, practice, court, engage, harass, persecute.
- ПРОДОВЖУВАТИСЯ last; synonyms (v) endure, continue, hold, exist, live, dwell, (n) abide, conclusion, (adj) extreme, closing, final, ultimate, conclusive, concluding, farthest; antonyms (n) opening, (adj) first.
- **ΠΡΟДΟΒΟЛЬ CTBO 1.** food (ϊжа); *synonyms* (n) board, edible, fare, aliment, diet, dish, nourishment, sustenance, eating, fodder, meat, nurture, nutriment, nutrition, pabulum, **2.** supplies; *synonyms* (n) food, provisions, stores, provender, resources, cache, (ν) equipment, outfit.
- **ПРОДУВАТИ** blow (дути); *synonyms* (*n*) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (*v*) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (*adj*) gasp; *antonyms* (*v*) calm. save.
- **IIPOJYKT 1.** product; *synonyms* (*n*) fruit, output, merchandise, proceeds, outgrowth, crop, article, commodity, composition, consequence, manufacture, harvest, development, effect, (*v*) produce, **2**. commodity; *synonyms* (*n*) product, object, thing, goods, ware, effects, movable, something, valuable, accommodation, advantage, asset, belonging, benefit, chattel, **3**. offspring; *synonyms* (*n*) issue, progeny, brood, children, family, child, descendant, descendants, lineage, posterity, race, seed, successor, (*v*) breed, generation, **4**. produce; *synonyms* (*v*) give, cause, make, bring, present, procreate, construct, create, form, frame, generate, fetch, prepare, bear, (*n*) gain.
- продуктивний 1. productive; synonyms (adj) fertile, fruitful, plentiful, fat, generative, helpful, copious, lucrative, constructive, inventive, original, abundant, creative, fecund, plenteous; antonyms (adj) unproductive, barren, unprofitable, 2. efficient; synonyms (adj) effectual, competent, effective, able, capable, valid, efficacious, operative, practical, adept,

- adroit, neat, regular, (v) clever, active; *antonyms* (adj) incompetent, inefficient.
- продуктивність 1. productivity; synonyms (n) efficiency, fertility, fruitfulness, productiveness, abundance, output, production, constructiveness, turnout, use, usefulness, utility, crop, harvest, lushness; antonym (n) fruitlessness, 2. efficiency; synonyms (n) capability, effectiveness, ability, efficacy, effect, capacity, aptitude, energy, potency, proficiency, ease, (v) agency, action; antonyms (n) inefficiency, incompetence, largeness, 3. capacity; synonyms (n) capacitance, function, intelligence, talent, might, dimension, content, endowment, faculty, gift, measure, position, potential, power, quantity; antonyms (n) inability, incapability, 4. power; synonyms (n) force, authority, control, domination, intensity, strength, command, jurisdiction, mightiness, rule, vigor, weight, mastery, (v) influence, dominion; antonyms (n) powerlessness, helplessness, weakness, 5. production; synonyms (n) generation, product, manufacturing, performance, creation, formation, produce, staging, fabrication, fruit, manufacture, origination, presentation, work, (v) exhibition, **6**. output; synonyms (n) yield, outturn, expenditure, (v) outcome.
- **ПРОДУКУВАТИ** produce; *synonyms* (*v*) give, effect, cause, make, bring, present, procreate, breed, construct, create, form, frame, generate, fetch, (*n*) gain.
- προλυκαίя 1. produce; synonyms (v) give, effect, cause, make, bring, present, procreate, breed, construct, create, form, frame, generate, fetch, (n) gain, 2. product; synonyms (n) fruit, output, merchandise, proceeds, outgrowth, crop, article, commodity, composition, consequence, manufacture, harvest, development, goods, (v) produce, 3. output; synonyms (n) turnout, yield, outturn, product, expenditure, (v) outcome, 4. production; synonyms (n) generation, manufacturing, performance, creation, formation, staging, fabrication, origination, presentation, work, piece, growth, extension, (v) exhibition, protraction.
- ΠΡΟДЮСЕР producer; synonyms (n) director, creator, manufacturer, author, maker, manager, cause, entrepreneur, farmer.
- проект 1. draft; synonyms (n) bill, conscription, sketch, check, drawing, (v) draught, outline, design, blueprint, compose, enlist, plan, recruit, chart, delineate; antonym (v) discharge, 2. project; synonyms (n) device, scheme, idea, enterprise, (v) hurl, contrive, jut, overhang, protrude, shoot, bulge, cast, devise, extend, forecast, 3. projection; synonyms (n) hump, prominence, protuberance, knob, ledge, protrusion, bump, map, extrusion, excrescence, convexity, ejection, gibbosity, prediction, (adj) salient, 4. design; synonyms (n) aim, purpose, conception, arrangement, intent, contrivance, copy, intention, (v) conceive, construct, arrange, contemplate, intend, invent, model; antonym (n) chance, 5. device; synonyms (n) apparatus, appliance, artifice, emblem, contraption, figure, gimmick, invention, trick, way, dodge, expedient, implement, instrument, machination, 6. plan; synonyms (n) pattern, form, method, project, agenda, diagram, (v) plot, draft, engineer, mean, hatch, maneuver, concoct, fix, frame.

- **ПРОЕКТУВАЛЬНИК** designer; *synonyms* (n) architect, couturier, creator, drawer, engineer, inventor, maker, decorator, (v) artist, projector; *antonym* (adj) off-the-rack.
- **IIPOEKTYBAHHЯ 1.** planning; *synonyms* (*n*) preparation, calculation, organization, programming, plan, readying, foresight, architecture, arrangements, building, consideration, construction, debate, deliberations, direction, **2.** projection; *synonyms* (*n*) bulge, hump, jut, prominence, protuberance, knob, ledge, overhang, protrusion, bump, map, extrusion, forecast, cast, (*adj*) salient.
- **ΠΡΟΕΚΤΥΒΑΤИ** project; *synonyms* (n) design, device, scheme, idea, enterprise, (ν) plan, hurl, contrive, jut, overhang, protrude, shoot, bulge, cast, devise.
- **ΠΡΟΕΚЦΙЯ** projection; *synonyms* (n) bulge, hump, jut, prominence, protuberance, knob, ledge, overhang, plan, protrusion, bump, map, extrusion, forecast, (adi) salient.
- **IIPOЖИВАННЯ** residence; *synonyms* (n) abode, dwelling, home, house, accommodation, domicile, lodging, occupancy, habitation, mansion, place, manse, abidance, apartment, hall.
- **IIP03a** prose; *synonyms* (n) style, writing, commonplace, language, literature, rap, speech, talk, text, words, (v) ramble, (adj) prosaic, maunder, palaver, prate; antonyms (n) poetry, verse.
- прозорий 1. transparent; synonyms (adj) diaphanous, lucid, obvious, plain, luminous, filmy, limpid, sheer, crystalline, gauzy, pellucid, gossamer, apparent, (n) clear, bright; antonyms (adj) opaque, solid, 2. clear; synonyms (adj) clean, certain, open, distinct, empty, light, (v) acquit, absolute, free, net, absolve, clarify, definite, discharge, exculpate; antonyms (adj) cloudy, unclear, dark, fuzzy, hazy, incomprehensible, obscure, uncertain, vague, ambiguous, blurry, confused, confusing, dull, (v) convict, 3. sheer; synonyms (adj) pure, mere, bold, simple, steep, transparent, regular, perpendicular, filmsy, rank, bare, blatant, (n) complete, perfect, entire; antonyms (adj) gentle, thick.
- **IIPO3OPICT6** clarity; *synonyms* (n) clearness, limpidity, comprehensibility, precision, purity, coherence, lucidity, pellucidity, simplicity; *antonyms* (n) cloudiness, obscurity, vagueness, haziness, mistiness, opacity, uncertainty, unclearness.
- IIPO3OPJIUBICTL insight; synonyms (n) discernment, vision, acumen, penetration, perception, understanding, brainwave, apprehension, acquaintance, idea, knowledge, acuteness, appreciation, clairvoyance, foresight.
- проїзд passage; *synonyms* (n) aisle, course, channel, corridor, gangway, hall, journey, entry, way, entrance, lobby, duct, opening, avenue, citation.
- IIPOKAT 1. hire; synonyms (n) wage, employment, fee, pay, salary, fare, (v) employ, engage, charter, enlist, rent, retain, take, commission, compensation; antonym (v) dismiss, 2. rent; synonyms (n) breach, cleft, fissure, lease, let, crevice, break, crack, tear, hole, flaw, fracture, gap, rift, (v) hire.
- прокидатися 1. wake; *synonyms* (*v*) awaken, awake, rouse, stir, arouse, excite, provoke, vigil, waken, kindle, (*n*) train, trail, backwash, track, wave; *antonym* (*v*) sleep,

- **2.** awake; *synonyms* (*adj*) alive, alert, attentive, conscious, aware, intelligent, keen, sleepless, acute, (*v*) wake, stimulate; *antonyms* (*adj*) asleep, unconscious, comatose, sleeping, sleepy.
- **ПРОКЛАДАТИ** lay; *synonyms* (*v*) place, put, fix, set, deposit, install, lie, rest, invest, bear, allay, arrange, (*adj*) secular, (*n*) ballad, pitch.
- IIPOKJIH damn; synonyms (adj) blasted, cursed, blame, damned, (v) condemn, bloody, curse, beshrew, blaspheme, imprecate, cuss, slam, cast, convict, (n) darn; antonym (v) bless.
- IIPOKJISTTS 1. ban; synonyms (n) anathema, bar, veto, restraint, command, curse, embargo, prohibition, (v) forbid, prohibit, banish, exclude, expel, enjoin, illegalize; antonyms (v) permit, allow, sanction, 2. damn; synonyms (adj) blasted, cursed, blame, damned, darned, (v) condemn, bloody, beshrew, blaspheme, imprecate, cuss, slam, cast, convict, (n) darn; antonym (v) bless.
- **προκγρορ** attorney; *synonyms* (n) advocate, lawyer, agent, counsel, counselor, factor, solicitor, representative, auctioneer, underwriter, advisor, bailiff, clerk, go-between, investigator.
- пролом 1. gap; synonyms (n) break, cleft, crack, crevice, fissure, aperture, chasm, clearance, difference, fracture, opening, vacancy, blank, chink, (v) breach, 2. breach; synonyms (n) gap, infringement, rift, split, trespass, cranny, burst, disruption, hole, infraction, (v) rupture, contravene, violate, division, infringe; antonym (n) observance.
- промайнути flash; synonyms (n) sparkle, blaze, shimmer, glitter, instant, coruscation, (v) flicker, twinkle, blink, flame, gleam, glimmer, coruscate, dazzle, lighten.
- IIpomax 1. miss; synonyms (v) lack, lose, fail, jump, omit, overlook, long, drop, escape, (n) maid, girl, want, fille, missy, (adj) fault; antonym (v) perceive, 2. boss; synonyms (n) chief, governor, head, overseer, superior, ruler, administrator, captain, director, executive, foreman, leader, (v) administer, govern, direct.
- ΠροΜαΧΗΥΤΙΙCЯ 1. miss; synonyms (v) lack, lose, fail, jump, omit, overlook, long, drop, escape, (n) maid, girl, want, fille, missy, (adj) fault; antonym (v) perceive, 2. boss; synonyms (n) chief, governor, head, overseer, superior, ruler, administrator, captain, director, executive, foreman, leader, (v) administer, govern, direct.
- **промисловий** industrial; *synonyms* (*adj*) technical, commercial, economic, manufactured, mechanical, business, capitalist, developed, entrepreneurial, occupational, professional, residential, scientific, technological, urban; *antonym* (*adj*) charitable.
- **промисловість** industry; *synonyms* (*n*) business, application, diligence, effort, industriousness, labor, toil, trade, work, assiduousness, exertion, manufacture, commerce.
- **ПРОМІЖНИЙ 1.** interim; *synonyms* (*adj*) temporary, transitory, acting, impermanent, provisional, transient, concomitance, (*n*) interval, interlude, distance, intermission, lag, pause, while, (*adv*) meantime; *antonym* (*adj*) permanent, **2.** neutral; *synonyms* (*adj*) disinterested, impartial, indifferent, dispassionate, impersonal, noncommittal, colorless, detached, fair,

- inert, objective, unbiased, apathetic, independent, (n) neuter; **antonyms** (adj) biased, aromatic, colorful, **3**. intermediate; **synonyms** (adj) average, medium, mean, mediate, mid, middle, moderate, central, halfway, median, mediocre, (v) intercede, interjacent, intercurrent, (n) intermediary.
- **προμίжοκ 1**. space; *synonyms* (n) length, gap, opening, period, place, scope, void, margin, distance, emptiness, extent, interval, latitude, location, range, **2**. gap; *synonyms* (n) break, cleft, crack, crevice, fissure, aperture, chasm, clearance, difference, fracture, vacancy, blank, chink, disparity, (v) breach, **3**. clearance; *synonyms* (n) clearing, clearage, disposal, headroom, settlement, acquittance, authorization, license, permit, room, acquittal; *antonyms* (n) blockage, retention, **4**. interval; *synonyms* (n) intermision, interruption, interlude, hiatus, interim, pause, respite, span, cessation, rest, space, time, delay, interstice, lull.
- промінь 1. ray; *synonyms* (*n*) beam, light, flash, glow, gleam, glimmer, brightness, irradiation, shaft, skate, streak, flicker, (*v*) irradiate, radiate, 2. beam; *synonyms* (*n*) blaze, ray, timber, joist, beacon, stream, glitter, (*v*) glare, air, broadcast, grin, smile, emit, laugh, (*adj*) shine.
- **IIPOMOBA 1.** speech; *synonyms* (*n*) address, delivery, expression, lecture, conversation, discourse, language, sermon, diction, communication, discussion, elocution, converse, (*v*) say, saying, **2**. address; *synonyms* (*n*) accost, abode, residence, skill, speech, allocution, greeting, oration, talk, appeal, (*v*) greet, call, harangue, speak, aim; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- **промовець 1**. speaker; *synonyms* (*n*) loudspeaker, narrator, orator, president, spokesman, conversationalist, chairman, talker, utterer, principal, **2**. spokesman; *synonyms* (*n*) mouthpiece, representative, speaker, delegate, interpreter, exponent, proponent, advocate, foreteller, lecturer, mantis, predicter, presenter, prophet, champion.
- ПРОНИЗЛИВИЙ 1. acute; synonyms (adj) sharp, incisive, intense, keen, penetrating, critical, piercing, severe, shrewd, shrill, smart, strong, acrid, acuate, (v) high; antonyms (adj) dull, obtuse, 2. searching; synonyms (v) cutting, excruciating, consuming, corroding, racking, (adj) inquisitive, probing, acute, curious, inquiring, profound, exploratory, trenchant, explorative, inquisitory, 3. keen; synonyms (adj) eager, intelligent, biting, brisk, enthusiastic, exquisite, discriminating, clever, astute, desirous, ardent, bright, fervent, (v) fresh, avid; antonyms (adj) apathetic, indifferent, unenthusiastic, blunt.
- проникати strike; *synonyms* (*n*) knock, assault, clap, (*v*) bang, beat, hit, impress, slap, move, affect, box, buffet, bump, clout, coin.
- ПРОНИКЛИВИЙ 1. acute; synonyms (adj) sharp, incisive, intense, keen, penetrating, critical, piercing, severe, shrewd, shrill, smart, strong, acrid, acuate, (v) high; antonyms (adj) dull, obtuse, 2. profound; synonyms (adj) deep, abstruse, heavy, bottomless, important, solid, sound, grave, obscure, utter, abysmal, complete, exhaustive, intimate, (n) impressive; antonyms (adj) superficial, shallow, trivial.
- **проникливість 1**. vision; *synonyms* (*n*) sight, view, dream, daydream, imagination, outlook, specter, ghost,

- spirit, apparition, fantasy, hallucination, image, phantom, (v) fancy; antonym (n) reality, 2. penetration; synonyms (n) insight, acuteness, discrimination, incursion, entrance, profundity, perception, sagacity, coition, (v) intelligence, discernment, judgment, acupuncture, (adj) acumen, subtlety.
- проникнення 1. penetration; synonyms (n) insight, acuteness, discrimination, incursion, entrance, profundity, perception, sagacity, coition, (v) intelligence, discernment, judgment, acupuncture, (adj) acumen, subtlety, 2. vision; synonyms (n) sight, view, dream, daydream, imagination, outlook, specter, ghost, spirit, apparition, fantasy, hallucination, image, phantom, (v) fancy; antonym (n) reality.
- **пропаганда** propaganda; *synonyms* (*n*) promotion, information, publicity, advertisement, diffusion, doctrine, falsehood, fib, instruction, programming, release, (*v*) propagandism, persuasion, disinformation, proselytism.
- пропадати disappear; synonyms (v) die, vanish, melt, fade, depart, dematerialize, sink, go, pass, end, abscond, fall, scram, disperse, dissolve; antonyms (v) appear, stay.
- IIPOIIAXA disappearance; synonyms (n) evanescence, loss, vanishing, going, disappearing, evaporation, fade, departure, passing, death, exodus, fading, occultation, receding, removal; antonyms (n) appearance, recurrence.
- пропозиція 1. proposition; synonyms (n) offer, overture, bid, motion, proposal, approach, assertion, design, plan, suggestion, premise, advance, position, principle, (v) proffer, 2. proposal; synonyms (n) advice, proposition, hypothesis, presentation, idea, view, question, advocacy, contemplation, measure, project, recommendation, scheme, animus, mind, 3, offering: synonyms (v) gift, grant, favor, benefaction, boon, (n) contribution, donation, oblation, present, endowment, bestowal, gratuity, reward, tribute, victim, 4. offer; synonyms (v) give, bestow, put, extend, impart, introduce, perform, propose, tender, lay, dedicate, contribute, donate, (n) go, crack; antonyms (v) withdraw, refuse, 5. suggestion; synonyms (n) hint, intimation, allusion, counsel, dash, sign, touch, trace, clue, implication, indication, inkling, insinuation, prompting, cue
- **IIPOIIOHYBAHHM 1.** offering; *synonyms* (v) gift, grant, favor, benefaction, boon, (n) contribution, donation, oblation, offer, present, presentation, endowment, bestowal, gratuity, reward, **2.** suggestion; *synonyms* (n) hint, advice, intimation, proposal, allusion, counsel, dash, proposition, recommendation, sign, touch, trace, clue, implication, indication, **3.** proposal; *synonyms* (n) motion, suggestion, overture, plan, proffer, hypothesis, bid, design, idea, view, question, advocacy, contemplation, advance, approach.
- **пропонувати 1.** suggest; *synonyms* (v) allude, imply, indicate, offer, advise, hint, intimate, propose, submit, counsel, proffer, point, connote, insinuate, mean; *antonym* (v) withdraw, **2.** offer; *synonyms* (v) give, bestow, put, advance, extend, impart, introduce, perform, tender, lay, dedicate, (n) bid, proposal, go, proposition; *antonym* (v) refuse, **3.** propose; *synonyms* (v) design, nominate, plan, aim, intend, move, suggest,

- advocate, present, project, broach, contemplate, name, propound, purpose, **4**. tender; *synonyms* (*adj*) affectionate, painful, loving, sensitive, soft, sore, compassionate, delicate, fond, gentle, mild, frail, caring, immature, (*n*) overture; *antonyms* (*adj*) tough, hard, hardhearted, rubbery, rough, **5**. put; *synonyms* (*v*) place, fix, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, establish, (*n*) deposit.
- пропорційний 1. balanced; synonyms (adj) equal, even, firm, regular, stable, steady, harmonious, impartial, steadfast, symmetrical, uniform, fast, fixed, secure, unprejudiced; antonyms (adj) biased, unbalanced, unfair, 2. proportional; synonyms (adj) proportionate, commensurate, proportionable, relative, balanced, graduated.
- **ΠΡΟΠΟΡΕΙΙЙΗΙСΤЬ** proportion; *synonyms* (n) balance, percentage, degree, ratio, portion, slice, dimension, equilibrium, equipoise, fraction, measure, part, rate, share, (v) scale.
- **ПРОПОРЦІОНАЛЬНИЙ** proportional; *synonyms* (*adj*) proportionate, commensurate, proportionable, relative, balanced, symmetrical, even, graduated.
- **προπορμίκ** 1. proportion; *synonyms* (n) balance, percentage, degree, ratio, portion, slice, dimension, equilibrium, equipoise, fraction, measure, part, rate, share, (ν) scale, 2. ratio; *synonyms* (n) proportion, extent, grade, comparison, relationship, amount.
- **προπycκ** omission; *synonyms* (*n*) failure, error, exclusion, fault, ellipsis, inadvertence, mistake, neglect, oversight, flaw, default, deletion, pretermission, slip, (*adī*) defect; *antonyms* (*n*) inclusion, adherence.
- **IPOIIYCKAHHЯ** omission; *synonyms* (*n*) failure, error, exclusion, fault, ellipsis, inadvertence, mistake, neglect, oversight, flaw, default, deletion, pretermission, slip, (*adj*) defect; *antonyms* (*n*) inclusion, adherence.
- Пропустити miss; *synonyms* (v) lack, lose, fail, jump, omit, overlook, long, drop, escape, (n) maid, girl, want, fille, missy, (adj) fault; antonym (v) perceive.
- IIPOPI3 1. slot; synonyms (n) groove, place, notch, gap, opening, position, aperture, cut, split, section, class, nick, partition, (v) slit, rank, 2. nick; synonyms (n) mark, chip, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (v) dent, steal, hack, indent, slash, snick.
- **IIPOPOKYBAHHЯ** prediction; *synonyms* (n) divination, forecast, forecasting, foresight, announcement, anticipation, augury, prognostication, prophecy, vaticination, foretelling, expectation, calculation, foreboding, guess.
- IIPOPOKYBATU predict; synonyms (v) anticipate, augur, forecast, foresee, foretell, portend, bode, divine, forebode, foreshadow, foreshow, presage, expect, herald, betoken.
- **ΠΡΟΡΟΙΙΤΒΟ** prediction; *synonyms* (*n*) divination, forecast, forecasting, foresight, announcement, anticipation, augury, prognostication, prophecy, vaticination, foretelling, expectation, calculation, foreboding, guess.
- **IIPOCBIT** daylight; *synonyms* (n) day, dawn, daybreak, light, morning, sunrise, clearance, daytime, sunup; *antonyms* (n) night, nighttime.

- просити 1. request; synonyms (n) petition, bid, prayer, application, claim, (v) demand, ask, invite, order, pray, appeal, beg, call, desire, entreat; antonym (v) command,
  2. beg; synonyms (v) adjure, implore, cadge, crave, importune, plead, request, require, solicit, supplicate, get, beseech, borrow, invoke, seek,
  3. ask; synonyms (v) inquire, interrogate, question, take, charge, consult, involve, necessitate, quiz, enquire, expect, need, summon, urge, appraise; antonym (v) answer,
  4. sue; synonyms (v) litigate, accuse, arraign, impeach, indict, process, prosecute, apply, pursue, woo, (n) apprehend, cite,
  5. seek; synonyms (v) search, attempt, endeavor, hunt, look, aspire, explore, quest, investigate, research, follow, essay, ransack, strive, struggle.
- **IIPOCHOBAHHЯ** screening; *synonyms* (n) screen, sieving, concealment, cover, covering, masking, viewing, showing, display.
- IIPOCJABJISTI celebrate; synonyms (v)
  commemorate, extol, keep, praise, acclaim, fete, honor, laud, solemnize, applaud, honour, distinguish, eulogize, exult, glorify; antonym (v) ignore.
- **Προσπεκτ** avenue; *synonyms* (n) channel, approach, passage, path, road, route, way, means, boulevard, course, lane, track, walk, outlet.
- простий 1. ordinary; synonyms (adj) middling, average, familiar, mediocre, usual, commonplace, everyday, habitual, normal, mean, banal, (n) common, customary, accustomed, (v) general; antonyms (adj) extraordinary, unusual, incredible, outstanding, peculiar, strange, special, distinguished, famous, 2. simple; synonyms (adj) plain, homely, pure, elementary, humble, innocent, mere, natural, rustic, honest, bare, chaste, childish, (v) clear, downright; antonyms (adj) complex, complicated, compound, elaborate, difficult, multiple, obscure, ornate, confused, confusing, cunning, multifaceted, problematical, sophisticated, 3. bald (лисий); synonyms (adj) hairless, simple, austere, meager, threadbare, raw, barefaced, dry, forthright, naked, nude, stark, (v) stupid, uninteresting; antonym (adj) hairy, 4. easy; synonyms (adj) comfortable, convenient, gentle, graceful, lenient, light, contented, cozy, casual, comfy, cushy, easygoing, effortless, (adv) soft, easily; antonyms (adj) arduous, demanding, hard, laborious, burdensome, particular, strenuous, tough, awkward, formal, testing, uneasy, 5. humble; synonyms (adj) base, docile, low, lowly, modest, unassuming, baseborn, (v) degrade, demean, disgrace, abase, debase, humiliate, mortify, conquer; antonyms (adj) grand, arrogant, conceited, haughty, imposing, impressive, pompous, snooty, 6. mere; synonyms (adj) entire, (n) lake, loch, tarn, absolute, boundary, pond, lough, (v) sheer, 7. plain; synonyms (adj) ordinary, comprehensible, intelligible, apparent, easy, evident, level, manifest, obvious, perspicuous, overt, outspoken, direct, dull, (n) flat; antonyms (adj) fancy, unclear, mottled, multicolored, attractive, concealed, fussy, two-colored.
- **простира**дло sheet; *synonyms* (*n*) board, layer, leaf, canvas, film, paper, coat, coating, blanket, cover, coverlet, newspaper, piece, plane, sail.
- **простір 1**. area (площа); *synonyms* (*n*) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood, section,

- sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land, 2. space; *synonyms* (n) length, gap, opening, period, scope, void, margin, distance, emptiness, interval, latitude, location, range, room, volume, 3. expansion; *synonyms* (n) amplification, enlargement, development, dilatation, dilation, elaboration, growth, stretch, distention, evolution, increase, inflation, swelling, (v) extension, augmentation; *antonyms* (n) contraction, decrease, reduction, abbreviation, 4. room; *synonyms* (n) chamber, occasion, apartment, hall, house, opportunity, flat, area, cabin, leeway, office, space, home, lodging, (v) board, 5. place; *synonyms* (n) position, domicile, order, spot, attitude, base, (v) post, arrange, fix, lay, locate, rank, station, deposit, install; *antonym* (v) remove.
- **IIPOCTO 1.** simply; *synonyms* (adv) only, just, alone, directly, exclusively, absolutely, easily, plainly, purely, but, plain, honestly, manifestly, (adj) merely, barely; antonym (adv) elaborately, 2. barely; synonyms (adv) hardly, scarcely, simply, narrowly, scantily, scarce, slightly, solely; antonym (adv) almost, 3. commonly; synonyms (adv) frequently, generally, normally, ordinarily, usually, customarily, currently, habitually, often, regularly, cheaply; antonyms (adv) rarely, unusually, uncommonly, 4. merely; synonym (adv) exactly.
- IIPOCTOДУШНІСТЬ simplicity; synonyms (n) innocence, ease, easiness, plainness, simpleness, clarity, artlessness, austerity, gullibility, severity, ignorance, frankness, rusticity, informality, (adj) inexperience; antonyms (n) difficulty, complexity, ambiguity.
- просторий 1. spacious; synonyms (adj) roomy, broad, extensive, large, ample, wide, capacious, commodious, vast, comprehensive, big, expansive, extended, liberal, open; antonyms (adj) cramped, narrow, 2. extensive; synonyms (adj) considerable, copious, major, long, sweeping, enormous, detailed, expanded, full, great, huge, immense, important, massive, spacious; antonyms (adj) restricted, small, limited, minor, partial, short, 3. wide; synonyms (adj) deep, thick, blanket, tolerant, general, cavernous, encompassing, gaping, inaccurate, panoptic, (adv) far, widely, astray; antonym (adj) thin, 4. vast; synonyms (adj) boundless, colossal, gigantic, immeasurable, unlimited, gargantuan, giant, infinite, monumental, unbounded, limitless, endless, mammoth, mighty, monstrous; antonym (adj) tiny, 5. ample; synonyms (adj) abundant, plentiful, affluent, heavy, rich, sizable, sufficient, voluminous, adequate, bountiful, enough, generous, plenteous, profuse, sizeable; antonyms (adj) inadequate, meager, insufficient, scarce, 6. loose; synonyms (adj) lax, dissolute, licentious, light, vague, detached, immoral, lewd, (v) disengage, liberate, relax, release, detach, (n) free, limp; antonyms (adj) tight, close, compressed, dense, taut, strict, compact, wedged. просторовий spatial; synonym (adj) spacial.
- IIPOCTOTA 1. simplicity; synonyms (n) innocence, ease, easiness, plainness, simpleness, clarity, artlessness, austerity, gullibility, severity, ignorance, frankness, rusticity, informality, (adj) inexperience; antonyms (n) difficulty, complexity, ambiguity, 2. innocence; synonyms (n) cleanness, blamelessness, chastity,

- ingenuousness, purity, innocency, simplicity, sinlessness, virtue, candor, honor, honour; *antonyms* (n) guilt, sophistication.
- ПРОСТРОЧЕНИЙ 1. back; synonyms (adv) before, backward, (n) rear, (adj) assist, (v) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; antonyms (n) face, (v) front, oppose, advance, 2. outstanding; synonyms (adj) eminent, due, conspicuous, great, owing, famous, distinguished, excellent, exceptional, notable, noteworthy, prominent, unpaid, major, brilliant; antonyms (adj) ordinary, paid, inferior.
- ПРОСТУДА chill; synonyms (n) coolness, (adj) cold, bleak, icy, chilly, frosty, depressing, freezing, frigid, (v) cool, freeze, dispirit, congeal, damp, dampen; antonyms (n) warmth, (v) heat, warm.
- ΠΡΟCΤΥΠΟΚ offence; synonyms (n) guilt, infraction, infringement, misdemeanor, misdemeanour, offense, assault, offensive, umbrage, violation, discourtesy.
- IIPOCTЯΓΑΤИ 1. extend; synonyms (v) expand, enlarge, amplify, broaden, dilate, widen, augment, continue, elongate, go, spread, carry, develop, increase, (adj) stretch; antonyms (v) withdraw, shorten, limit, narrow, shrink, 2. spread; synonyms (v) scatter, reach, disperse, extend, broadcast, circulate, diffuse, disseminate, propagate, deploy, distribute, (n) span, dissemination, expanse, expansion; antonym (adj) concentrated.
- προστяγετικα extend; synonyms (v) expand, enlarge, amplify, broaden, dilate, widen, augment, continue, elongate, go, spread, carry, develop, increase, (adj) stretch; antonyms (v) withdraw, shorten, limit, narrow, shrink.
- просування 1. progression; synonyms (n) advance, progress, headway, improvement, furtherance, chain, course, development, evolution, sequence, series, suite, train, (v) advancement, (adj) succession, 2. advancement; synonyms (n) promotion, upgrade, growth, cultivation, elevation, progression, profit, betterment, exaltation, gain, movement, raise, rise, upgrading, 3. promotion; synonyms (n) advertising, boost, encouragement, hype, preferement, advertisement, forwarding, publicity, support, advocacy, lift, preference, propaganda; antonyms (n) demotion, neglect.
- IIPOCYBATU 1. further; synonyms (adv) farther, again, also, (adj) extra, additional, more, another, (v) advance, encourage, forward, foster, accelerate, elevate, help, (n) promote; antonym (adj) less, 2. promote; synonyms (v) aid, advertise, develop, prefer, push, assist, boost, dignify, enhance, exalt, improve, increase, plug, raise, (adv) further; antonyms (v) demote, discourage, 3. push; synonyms (n) press, thrust, jolt, poke, elbow, (v) drive, impel, crowd, force, jab, jostle, nudge, prod, jam, rush; antonyms (v) pull, drag, haul.
- **просуватися 1.** advance; *synonyms* (n) progress, improvement, (v) further, proceed, promote, approach, encourage, raise, rise, boost, contribute, cultivate, develop, forward, (phr) accelerate; *antonyms* (n) deterioration, (v) retreat, recede, delay, demote, regress, **2.** progress; *synonyms* (n) headway, furtherance,

- betterment, gain, course, advancement, development, growth, increase, movement, (v) advance, continue, go, move, grow; *antonym* (n) decline.
- IIPOCLBGA 1. appeal; synonyms (n) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (v) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; antonyms (n) unpleasantness, (v) repel, 2. request; synonyms (n) petition, bid, prayer, claim, wish, invitation, asking, (v) invite, order, pray, appeal, beg, call, desire, entreat; antonym (v) command.
- **проте 1**. however; *synonyms* (adv) but, although, anyway, nevertheless, yet, how, nonetheless, notwithstanding, anyhow, except, still, (conj) albeit, though, even, (adj) howsoever, 2. but; synonyms (conj) while, (adv) alone, only, barely, however, merely, simply, exclusively, if, just, solely, unless, (prep) besides, excluding, save, 3. nevertheless; synonyms (adv) regardless, withal, eventually, (conj) howbeit, nathless, 4. vet; synonyms (adv) further, hitherto, always, more, finally, heretofore, till, until, (n) already, (adj) erewhile, 5. and; synonyms (conj) with, (adv) also, additionally, (prep) plus, including, 6. notwithstanding; synonym (prep) despite, 7. still; synonyms (adj) calm, pacify, peaceful, silence, quiescent, serene, silent, appease, (n) hush, (v) quiet, assuage, compose, lull, soothe, allay; antonyms (adj) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, (n) noisy.
- **протеїн** protein; *synonyms* (n) cytoplasm, protoplasm, (adj) albumen, gluten, glair, cream, milk, starch.
- протекційний protective; *synonyms* (*adj*) defensive, preventive, caring, maternal, motherly, paternal, shielding, sheltering, affectionate, tender, (*adv*) fatherly, (*v*) protecting.
- **IIPOTEKUIOHI3M** protection (3axuct); *synonyms* (n) defense, care, conservation, cover, custody, defence, guardianship, security, shelter, aegis, auspices, preservation, shield, bulwark, (v) guard; *antonym* (n) destruction
- **Inpotect 1.** protest; *synonyms* (*n*) demonstration, objection, complaint, challenge, question, (*v*) dissent, assert, complain, object, affirm, asseverate, attest, aver, declare, demur; *antonym* (*v*) support, **2.** objection; *synonyms* (*n*) protest, exception, grievance, gripe, disagreement, outcry, difficulty, disapproval, expostulation, criticism, disadvantage, drawback, scruple, animadversion, argument.
- протестувати 1. protest; synonyms (n) demonstration, objection, complaint, challenge, question, (v) dissent, assert, complain, object, affirm, asseverate, attest, aver, declare, demur; antonym (v) support, 2. object; synonyms (n) design, aim, cause, end, intent, intention, meaning, mark, matter, subject, substance, drift, goal, (v) except, mind; antonym (v) agree.
- **проти** versus; *synonyms* (*prep*) anti, about, concerning, (*adv*) against, counter.
- **ПРОТИБОРСТВО** confrontation; *synonyms* (n) clash, encounter, conflict, fight, disagreement, resistance, engagement, fighting, meeting, opposition, showdown, skirmish, brush, challenge; *antonym* (n) cooperation.
- **противитися** oppose; *synonyms* (*v*) object, contest, contend, contradict, contravene, controvert, counteract,

- resist, fight, counter, disagree, dissent, combat, confront, defend; *antonyms* ( $\nu$ ) support, advocate, agree, back, advise.
- **ПРОТИВНИЙ** opposed; *synonyms* (*adj*) conflicting, contradictory, hostile, contrary, antagonistic, opposing, adverse, averse, contrasted, repugnant, incompatible, irreconcilable, counter, against, opposite.
- **противник** opponent; *synonyms* (*n*) enemy, antagonist, adversary, competitor, foe, contrary, contestant, foeman, opposition, match, opposer, opposite, rival, challenger, (*adj*) opposing; *antonyms* (*n*) ally, supporter, follower.
- **ПРОТИГАЗ** mask; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, conceal, veil, camouflage, screen, blind, guise, curtain, pretense, blanket, (*v*) cloak, disguise, hide, dissemble, masquerade; *antonym* (*v*) disclose.
- IIPOTU/III 1. opposition; synonyms (n) contrast, conflict, antithesis, contrary, contrariety, antagonism, enemy, hostility, opponent, opposite, competition, contradiction, antagonist, antipathy, aversion; antonym (n) consent, 2. reaction; synonyms (n) answer, response, backlash, reply, effect, reception, rejoinder, repercussion, retort, feeling, 3. resistance; synonyms (n) opposition, endurance, friction, immunity, impedance, obstacle, renitency, confrontation, reluctance, stamina, dissent, (v) rebellion, interference, mutiny, inhibition; antonyms (n) smoothness, agreement, obedience, susceptibility.
- протидіяти 1. counter; synonyms (n) buffet, bench, reverse, (v) reply, contradict, resist, answer, react, respond, retort, thwart, (adj) converse, antagonistic, contrary, opposite, 2. cross; synonyms (n) crisscross, affliction, (v) intersect, baffle, cover, bilk, (adj) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; antonyms (v) uncross, (adj) calm, good-tempered, 3. react; synonyms (v) act, oppose, recoil, behave, return; antonym (v) ignore.
- **протилежне** contrary; *synonyms* (*adj*) opposite, contradictory, adverse, conflicting, reverse, unfavorable, alien, cross, different, disobedient, obstinate, perverse, averse, antagonistic, (*adv*) counter.
- протилежний 1. contrary; synonyms (adj) opposite, contradictory, adverse, conflicting, reverse, unfavorable, alien, cross, different, disobedient, obstinate, perverse, averse, antagonistic, (adv) counter, 2. counter; synonyms (n) buffet, bench, counterpunch, desk, (v) reply, contradict, resist, answer, react, respond, retort, thwart, disprove, (adi) converse, contrary, 3. reverse; synonyms (adj) inverse, (v) annul, repeal, rescind, countermand, overturn, revoke, rear, nullify, cancel, invert, overrule, back, (n) reversal, setback; antonym (n) front, 4. opposite; synonyms (adj) diametric, hostile, opposing, opposed, diametrical, inconsistent, repugnant, unlike, across, discordant, (n) opponent, adversary, contradiction, antonym, (pron) other; antonym (adj) similar, 5. adverse; synonyms (adj) harmful, untoward, inimical, negative, bad, detrimental, disadvantageous, disastrous, harsh, ill, inauspicious, injurious, unfortunate, unlucky, calamitous; antonym (adj) favorable, 6. opposed; synonyms (adj) contrasted, incompatible, irreconcilable, against, rival, disinclined, reluctant, unwilling.

- протилежність 1. opposition; *synonyms* (*n*) contrast, conflict, antithesis, contrary, contrariety, antagonism, enemy, hostility, opponent, opposite, competition, contradiction, antagonist, antipathy, aversion; *antonym* (*n*) consent, 2. reverse; *synonyms* (*adj*) converse, inverse, (*v*) annul, repeal, rescind, countermand, overturn, revoke, rear, nullify, cancel, invert, overrule, (*n*) reversal, setback; *antonym* (*n*) front.
- протилежно conversely; synonyms (adv) counter, contrariwise, but, nevertheless, nonetheless, still, though, vet.
- **προτυρατυ** Wear; *synonyms* (ν) dress, endure, bear, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, (n) clothing, apparel, attire, clothes, garb, erosion, garment; *antonym* (ν) refresh
- **IIPOTUPIUUS** contradiction; *synonyms* (n) antithesis, denial, clash, contrast, disagreement, discrepancy, inconsistency, opposite, refutation, reverse; *antonym* (n) agreement.
- **ΠΡΟΤИСТАВЛЯТИ** oppose; *synonyms* (ν) object, contest, contend, contradict, contravene, controvert, counteract, resist, fight, counter, disagree, dissent, combat, confront, defend; *antonyms* (ν) support, advocate, agree, back, advise.
- IIPOTUCTOSTI 1. confront; synonyms (v) face, front, oppose, challenge, approach, brave, defy, collate, affront, play, compare, dare, encounter, meet, resist; antonyms (v) avoid, evade, 2. resist; synonyms (v) repel, rebel, revolt, endure, balk, combat, disobey, impede, protest, refuse, reject, withstand, rebuff, hold, (n) confront; antonyms (v) surrender, yield, assent.
- **IIPOTOKA** channel; *synonyms* (n) canal, conduit, groove, drain, duct, line, passage, trough, waterway, aqueduct, link, hollow, (v) carry, conduct, convey.
- протокол 1. protocol; *synonyms* (*n*) etiquette, manners, ceremony, bill, formality, concordat, decorum, propriety, 2. minutes; *synonyms* (*n*) proceedings, record, transactions, records, journal, account, 3. roll; *synonyms* (*n*) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (*v*) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow, 4. record; *synonyms* (*n*) book, disk, document, history, deed, disc, (*v*) chronicle, file, enter, note, report, score, inscribe, mark, enrol.
- **ПРОТОКОЛЮВАТИ** protocol; *synonyms* (n) etiquette, manners, ceremony, bill, formality, concordat, decorum, propriety.
- **IIPOTOTUII** prototype; *synonyms* (n) model, archetype, epitome, example, exemplar, paradigm, pattern, ideal, original, paragon, type, forerunner, image, parent, precursor.
- **протягом 1.** during; *synonyms* (*prep*) within, on, by, for, of, pending, inside, about, amid, besides, concerning, adhering, (*adj*) throughout, (*adv*) while, whilst, **2.** within; *synonyms* (*prep*) into, (*adv*) in, indoors, internally, inwardly, inly, (*n*) interior, (*adj*) inwards; *antonyms* (*prep*) outside, beyond, **3.** for; *synonyms* (*prep*) because, behind, per, during, toward, (*conj*) considering, since, (*adv*) against, as, therefore, hence, **4.** pending; *synonyms* (*prep*) awaiting, (*adj*) forthcoming, undecided, unresolved, unsettled, outstanding, hanging, looming, pendulous, suspended, doubtful, inoperative,

- overhanging, pendant, (n) abeyance; **antonym** (adj) distant.
- **IIPOTЯГУВАННЯ** drawing; *synonyms* (n) draft, drafting, delineation, picture, plan, cartoon, depiction, draftsmanship, draught, draw, painting, chart, design, figure, illustration.
- **ΠΡΟΦΑΗ** outsider; *synonyms* (n) alien, foreigner, stranger, layman, outlander, newcomer.
- професійний 1. professional; synonyms (adj) specialist, occupational, competent, technical, skillful, proficient, skilled, experienced, practiced, (n) expert, authority, master, pro, maestro, whiz; antonyms (adj) unpaid, unprofessional, (n) amateur, 2. occupational; synonyms (adj) commercial, functional, corporate, industrial, job.
- професіонал professional; synonyms (adj) specialist, occupational, competent, technical, skillful, proficient, skilled, experienced, practiced, (n) expert, authority, master, pro, maestro, whiz; antonyms (adj) unpaid, unprofessional, (n) amateur.
- **професіонально** professionally; *synonyms* (*adv*) ably, capably, competently, proficiently, resourcefully, well.
- **προφecis 1.** profession; synonyms (n) confession, declaration, employment, occupation, affirmation, calling, career, job, vocation, position, assertion, assurance, avowal, business, craft, 2. calling; synonyms (n) call, profession, avocation, trade, walk, pursuit, mission, work, 3. trade; synonyms (n) deal, barter, commerce, swap, switch, clientele, interchange, custom, dealing, market, (v) change, exchange, merchandise, bargain, sell; antonyms (n) purchase, (adj) charitable, 4. occupation; synonyms (n) occupancy, place, affair, conquest, function, line, concern, activity, capture, invasion, office, action, duty, labor, game; antonym (n) surrender.
- **професор** professor; synonyms (n) lecturer, scholar, teacher, instructor, coach, don, trainer, tutor, academic, connoisseur.
- **профіль** profile; *synonyms* (*n*) contour, outline, form, figure, shape, silhouette, line, section, ambit, biography, circuit, perimeter, periphery, portrait.
- прохання 1. application; synonyms (n) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, demand, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, call, claim, 2. appeal; synonyms (n) address, application, attraction, entreaty, lure, magnetism, prayer, (v) charm, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest, plead; antonyms (n) unpleasantness, (v) repel, 3. request; synonyms (n) bid, wish, invitation, asking, command, quest, requisition, (v) invite, order, pray, beg, desire, entreat, inquire, seek, 4. suit; synonyms (n) lawsuit, action, case, (v) agree, fit, correspond, accommodate, adapt, answer, become, match, meet, please, adjust, satisfy, 5. prayer (молитва); synonyms (n) invocation, orison, suit, litany, devotion, supplication, blessing, supplicant, worship, communion.
- IIPOXATU 1. appeal; synonyms (n) plea, address, application, attraction, demand, entreaty, lure, (v) charm, request, sue, ask, attract, beseech, implore, interest; antonyms (n) unpleasantness, (v) repel, 2. pray; synonyms (v) beg, entreat, crave, appeal, invite, plead,

- importune, invoke, petition, supplicate, bid, solicit, (adv) please, do.
- прохач 1. applicant; synonyms (n) petitioner, aspirant, candidate, applier, contender, contestant, solicitor, hopeful, 2. prayer (молитва); synonyms (n) petition, invocation, appeal, entreaty, plea, orison, request, suit, litany, devotion, asking, supplication, blessing, demand, supplicant.
- IIPOXIД 1. access (ДОСТУП); synonyms (n) admission, approach, entrance, entry, admittance, entree, gate, attack, doorway, entryway, fit, opening, outburst, passage, (v) enter; antonym (n) exit, 2. canal; synonyms (n) aqueduct, channel, conduit, duct, sound, adit, culvert, trench, ditch, groove, pipe, stream, trough, vessel, (v) canalize, 3. lane; synonyms (n) course, alley, road, aisle, avenue, path, track, way, line, artery, passageway, pathway, route, street, trail, 4. passage; synonyms (n) corridor, gangway, hall, journey, lobby, citation, excerpt, extract, lane, movement, paragraph, pass, section, vestibule, voyage, 5. pass; synonyms (v) flow, deliver, give, happen, lead, move, offer, overtake, live, advance, die, elapse, exceed. (adi) go, run; antonym (v) fail.
- ПРОХІДНИЙ practicable; synonyms (adj) feasible, possible, operable, practical, achievable, doable, executable, viable, workable, attainable, likely, handy, realizable, usable, useful; antonym (adj) impossible.
- **проходження 1**. passing; *synonyms* (*adj*) ephemeral, fleeting, momentary, transient, brief, cursory, fugitive, impermanent, casual, (*n*) overtaking, death, decease, departure, expiration, passage; *antonyms* (*adj*) permanent, lasting, **2**. passage; *synonyms* (*n*) aisle, course, channel, corridor, gangway, hall, journey, entry, way, entrance, lobby, duct, opening, avenue, citation.
- **ПРОХОДИТИ** pass; *synonyms* (v) flow, deliver, give, happen, lead, move, offer, overtake, live, advance, die, elapse, exceed, (*adj*) go, run; *antonym* (v) fail.
- **прохолодний** cool; *synonyms* (*adj*) chilly, cold, collected, composed, fine, aloof, apathetic, lukewarm, (*v*) calm, chill, assuage, allay, pacify, (*n*) composure, poise; *antonyms* (*adj*) agitated, hot, excited, enthusiastic, feverish, friendly, temperate, tepid, (*v*) warm, heat.
- процвітання 1. prosperity; synonyms (n) affluence, success, wealth, flourish, fortune, welfare, opulence, abundance, good, prosperousness, benefit, growth, riches, thrift, (adv) happiness; antonym (n) poverty, 2. success; synonyms (n) conquest, achievement, hit, prosperity, passing, accomplishment, effectiveness, triumph, victory, achiever, luck, win, fruition, efficacy, attainment; antonyms (n) failure, flop, debacle, defeat, disappointment, prevention.
- **процвітаючий** prosperous; *synonyms* (*adj*) lucky, auspicious, flourishing, favorable, opulent, advantageous, affluent, comfortable, easy, palmy, rich, successful, thriving, well-off, (*n*) fortunate; *antonym* (*adj*) poor.
- **процедура** procedure; *synonyms* (n) process, formula, practice, routine, fashion, approach, custom, method, rule, action, measure, course, function, operation, performance.
- **ΠΡΟЦΕΗΤ 1**. interest; *synonyms* (n) concern, advantage, affair, account, gain, hobby, behalf,

- eagerness, enthusiasm, sake, (v) engage, care, benefit, appeal, affect; *antonyms* (n) indifference, apathy, (v) bore, **2**. percent; *synonyms* (n) percentage, pet, part, portion, share, **3**. percentage; *synonyms* (n) cut, lot, percent, piece, proportion, ration, interest, profit, degree, measure, poundage, quantity, quota, rate, agio.
- **προιμec 1.** process; *synonyms* (n) operation, proceeding, method, procedure, act, course, formula, outgrowth, means, mode, practice, (v) action, function, refine, litigate, **2.** operation; *synonyms* (n) execution, movement, agency, effect, business, management, functioning, performance, running, mission, task, job, activity, employment, exercise.
- **προцесія 1.** procession; *synonyms* (n) parade, cavalcade, convoy, cortege, column, file, pageant, progress, sequence, series, string, caravan, advance, line, succession, **2.** train; *synonyms* (n) chain, (v) aim, coach, direct, educate, exercise, trail, tail, tame, discipline, drill, instruct, prepare, school, domesticate.
- **IIPOLIECOP** processor; *synonyms* (n) mainframe, butcher, computer, laptop, notebook, workstation, machine, supercomputer.
- **ПРОЧИТАНИЙ** read (читати); *synonyms* (v) interpret, construe, decipher, gather, indicate, learn, perceive, say, understand, demonstrate, comprehend, display, examine, explain, peruse.
- прочитати read (читати); *synonyms* (*v*) interpret, construe, decipher, gather, indicate, learn, perceive, say, understand, demonstrate, comprehend, display, examine, explain, peruse.
- **IPOUICYBATM** card; *synonyms* (n) bill, board, ticket, label, carte, menu, notice, placard, postal, scorecard, wit, (n) tease
- IIPOHYXAHKA hiding; synonyms (n) cover, covering, concealing, concealment, beating, thrashing, rout, ambush, coverture, abscondence, covert, defeat, defense, hitting, (adj) cowardly; antonym (n) victory.
- **прощавайте** farewell; *synonyms* (*n*) adieu, leave, valediction, goodbye, parting, departure, separation.
- прощання 1. farewell; synonyms (n) adieu, leave, valediction, goodbye, parting, departure, separation, 2. vale; synonyms (n) valley, bottom, gorge, basin, cave, cavern, cove, glade, grove, slade, strath; antonym (n) hill, 3. leave; synonyms (v) depart, forsake, go, abandon, desert, quit, escape, flee, lead, (n) furlough, holiday, permission, permit, break, (adj) empty; antonyms (v) arrive, enter, stay, remain, approach, change, come.
- **προщατи 1.** excuse; synonyms (n) apology, alibi, evasion, palliate, pretext, color, (v) pardon, absolve, acquit, condone, exculpate, forgive, justify, apologise, apologize; antonym (v) punish, 2. pardon; synonyms (n) amnesty, forgiveness, grace, remission, reprieve, (v) excuse, exonerate, spare, absolution, acquittal, discharge, remit, pity, release, (adj) clear; antonym (v) blame
- **IIPOЩATIICЯ** farewell; *synonyms* (n) adieu, leave, valediction, goodbye, parting, departure, separation.
- прощення 1. pardon; *synonyms* (n) amnesty, forgiveness, (v) absolve, condone, excuse, forgive, justify, acquit, exonerate, spare, absolution, acquittal,

- discharge, (adj) exculpate, clear; antonym (v) blame, 2. mercy; synonyms (n) clemency, compassion, kindness, favor, pity, charity, grace, humanity, leniency, pardon, benevolence, forbearance, mercifulness, quarter, sympathy.
- **IIPOSIB** exhibition; *synonyms* (n) demonstration, display, exhibit, exposition, exposure, fair, manifestation, presentation, show, spectacle, scene, appearance, array, expo, expression.
- **IIPOSBJISTU** demonstrate; synonyms (v) prove, authenticate, attest, display, establish, exhibit, present, show, argue, certify, confirm, evidence, exemplify, explain, indicate; antonyms (v) disprove, conceal.
- **IIPOSBLISTUCS** appear; *synonyms* (*v*) occur, rise, seem, sound, emerge, show, break, arise, arrive, begin, feel, happen, look, surface, (*n*) come; *antonyms* (*v*) disappear, vanish.
- ПРУДКИЙ fast; synonyms (adj) dissolute, firm, agile, debauched, fixed, hurried, instant, quick, rapid, staunch, brisk, (adv) soon, hard, close, (n) diet; antonyms (adj) sluggish, loose, (adv) slow, slowly, leisurely, (v) gorge, (n) binge.
- **пружина** spring (весна); *synonyms* (*n*) jump, leap, bound, fountain, skip, source, dance, rise, (*v*) hop, caper, bounce, dive, originate, recoil, (*adi*) elastic.
- IIPYЖИНИТИ yield; synonyms (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; antonyms (v) resist, persevere.
- **ПРУЖНІСТЬ** spring (весна); *synonyms* (n) jump, leap, bound, fountain, skip, source, dance, rise, (v) hop, caper, bounce, dive, originate, recoil, (adi) elastic.
- πpyT rod; synonyms (n) bar, baton, perch, shaft, whip, arm, cane, gat, staff, wand, truncheon, club, cudgel, (ν) stick, line.
- ПРЯДКА wheel; synonyms (n) circle, cycle, bicycle, gear, handwheel, rack, (v) roll, revolve, turn, bike, spin, trundle, gyrate, rotate, twirl.
- пряжа yarn; *synonyms* (n) narrative, story, tale, thread, anecdote, narration, twine, string, fable, fiction, history, relation, legend, line, strand.
- прямий 1. direct; synonyms (adj) straight, blunt, immediate, (v) aim, channel, conduct, address, charge, control, dictate, head, administer, guide, lead, (n) command; antonyms (adj) indirect, roundabout, circuitous, oblique, second-hand, sideways, unplanned, (v) request, 2. straight; synonyms (adv) level, right, directly, (adj) erect, honest, even, flat, upright, fair, correct, just, perpendicular, proper, accurate, (v) direct; antonyms (adv) indirectly, (adj) curly, curved, diluted, winding, zigzag, askew, bent, curvy, knotted, twisted, twisting, wavy, guarded, lopsided, 3. bald (лисий); synonyms (adj) bare, hairless, simple, austere, meager, threadbare, raw, barefaced, dry, forthright, mere, naked, nude, plain, stark; antonym (adi) hairy, 4. straightforward: synonyms (adi) open, square, candid. sincere, aboveboard, clear, easy, frank, outspoken, outright, downright, ingenuous, unsophisticated, unequivocal, artless; antonyms (adi) complicated, difficult, complex, deceitful, tricky, devious, mysterious, pompous, 5. right; synonyms (adj) appropriate, due,

- decent, good, perfect, exact, faithful, fit, reasonable, becoming, (n) privilege, law, liberty, authority, (v) rectify; *antonyms* (adj) inappropriate, unjustified, immoral, incorrect, (n) left, (v) wrong.
- πρямо 1. directly; synonyms (adv) immediately, forthwith, instantly, bluntly, direct, frankly, straight, personally, sheer, flat, now, promptly, quickly, slap, (adj) forthright; antonyms (adv) indirectly, obliquely, later, 2. straight; synonyms (adv) level, right, directly, (adj) erect, honest, even, upright, fair, correct, just, perpendicular, proper, accurate, immediate, consecutive; antonyms (adj) curly, curved, diluted, winding, zigzag, askew, bent, curvy, knotted, twisted, twisting, wavy, circuitous, guarded, lopsided, 3. bang; synonyms (n) clap, beat, smack, knock, smash, strike, blast, blow, bump, (v) hit, slam, bash, boom, clatter, clink.
- прямовисний 1. vertical; synonyms (adj) upright, perpendicular, straight, erect, sheer, standing, plumb, unbowed; antonyms (adj) horizontal, prone, 2. upright; synonyms (adj) vertical, fair, good, just, righteous, honest, honorable, right, true, virtuous, pure, clean, moral, noble, (n) column; antonyms (adv) horizontally, (adj) disreputable, upturned, degenerate, hanging, unwholesome, 3. sheer; synonyms (adj) absolute, mere, bold, diaphanous, filmy, gauzy, gossamer, simple, steep, transparent, regular, flimsy, (n) complete, perfect, entire; antonyms (adj) gentle, thick.
- IIPAMOBUCHO sheer; synonyms (adj) absolute, pure, mere, bold, diaphanous, filmy, gauzy, gossamer, simple, steep, transparent, regular, (n) complete, perfect, entire; antonyms (adj) gentle, thick.
- **прямокутний** rectangular; *synonyms* (*adj*) orthogonal, oblong, square, rectangled, rectangle.
- прямувати 1. go; synonyms (v) come, elapse, pass, break, crack, depart, disappear, drive, run, travel, fall, extend, function, (n) fare, (adj) follow, 2. strike; synonyms (n) knock, assault, clap, (v) bang, beat, hit, impress, slap, move, affect, box, buffet, bump, clout, coin.
- **ПРЯСТИ** spin; *synonyms* (*n*) turn, twirl, whirl, revolution, roll, ride, eddy, (*v*) revolve, twist, run, drive, reel, fabricate, gyrate, invent.
- **психіатричний** psychiatric; *synonyms* (*adj*) psychiatrical, mental.
- **ПСИХІЧНИЙ** mental; *synonyms* (*adj*) intellectual, ideal, psychic, subjective, insane, psychical, psychological, spiritual, genial; *antonyms* (*adj*) physical, bodily.
- психолог psychologist; synonym (n) psychologue. психологічний psychological; synonyms (adj) mental, psychic, psychical, cerebral, intellectual, inner, psychologic, subconscious, subjective, critical, mind, experimental, imaginary, intellective, irrational.
- **психологія** psychology; *synonyms* (n) psychics, mentality, animastic, metaphysics, ontology.
- **IICYBAHHЯ** 1. corruption; *synonyms* (n) contamination, depravity, adulteration, pollution, bribery, filth, infection, taint, vitiation, canker, blight, foulness, impurity, contagion, (adj) shuffle; *antonyms* (n) purification, decency, honesty, incorruptness, 2.

- deterioration; *synonyms* (n) decline, degradation, decay, failure, corruption, damage, debasement, declension, degeneration, impairment, ruin, wear, atrophy, (adj) degeneracy, (v) depravation; *antonyms* (n) improvement, development, growth.
- **IICYBATU** mess; *synonyms* (n) clutter, jumble, muddle, confusion, difficulty, disorder, hodgepodge, jam, scrape, bedlam, chaos, dilemma, dirt, (v) botch, soil; *antonym* (n) order.
- **ΠCYBATHCЯ** decay; *synonyms* (n) decline, decomposition, ebb, corruption, disintegration, collapse, deterioration, (ν) rot, decompose, blight, rust, crumble, corrupt, decrease, deteriorate; *antonym* (n) growth.
- HTAX bird; synonyms (n) birdie, chick, fowl, girl, wench, hiss, shuttlecock, insect, mollusk, reptile, shellfish, worm, person, biddy, (v) birdwatch.
- IITAXA bird; synonyms (n) birdie, chick, fowl, girl, wench, hiss, shuttlecock, insect, mollusk, reptile, shellfish, worm, person, biddy, (v) birdwatch.
- **ΠΤΑΙΙΙΕΗЯ** chicken (курка, курча); synonyms (n) chick, cock, coward, fowl, hen, crybaby, nestling, poultry, weakling, wimp, (adj) yellow, chickenhearted.
- IITAIIIKA bird; synonyms (n) birdie, chick, fowl, girl, wench, hiss, shuttlecock, insect, mollusk, reptile, shellfish, worm, person, biddy, (v) birdwatch.
- публіка 1. audience; *synonyms* (n) hearing, interview, attendance, house, meeting, turnout, audition, congregation, crowd, following, public, spectators, (v) auditory, 2. public; *synonyms* (adj) common, national, overt, civic, general, communal, mutual, popular, ordinary, (n) folk, community, people, populace, audience, (v) open; *antonyms* (adj) private, confidential, personal.
- **ПУБЛІКАЦІЯ 1.** card; *synonyms* (n) bill, board, ticket, label, carte, menu, notice, placard, postal, scorecard, wit, (v) tease, **2.** publication; *synonyms* (n) announcement, book, issue, newspaper, periodical, proclamation, journal, declaration, disclosure, promulgation, volume, circular, magazine, issuance, bulletin.
- **IIY BATH** publish; *synonyms* (v) declare, announce, disclose, circulate, divulge, issue, proclaim, communicate, notify, advertise, broadcast, print, promulgate, spread, expose.
- публічний 1. public; synonyms (adj) common, national, overt, civic, general, communal, mutual, popular, ordinary, (n) folk, community, people, populace, audience, (v) open; antonyms (adj) private, confidential, personal, 2. overt; synonyms (adj) blatant, obvious, apparent, clear, explicit, flagrant, barefaced, conspicuous, naked, public, unconcealed; antonyms (adj) camouflaged, concealed, covert, indirect.
- **ПУБЛІЧНІСТЬ** publicity; *synonyms* (*n*) advertisement, promotion, advertising, notoriety, propaganda, exposure, buildup, disclosure.
- IIYEJIIHHO 1. openly; synonyms (adv) frankly, freely, candidly, publicly, directly, clearly, evidently, honestly, ingenuously, bluntly, obviously, overtly, patently, plainly, (adj) manifestly; antonyms (adv) secretly, clandestinely, furtively, mysteriously, secretively, ambiguously, covertly, reticently, 2. publicly; synonyms (adv) openly, publically, formally,

- authoritatively, beforehand, communally, first, generally, legitimately, paravant, collectively.
- **пудинг** pudding; *synonyms* (*n*) pud, sweet, gut, puddening, (*adj*) butter, clay, curd, dough, jam, pap, gelatinous, pulp, rob, taste, wax.
- ПУДРА powder; *synonyms* (*n*) dust, gunpowder, explosive, (*v*) grind, crush, pound, pulverise, pulverize, sprinkle, bespangle.
- **ПУДРИТИСЯ** powder; *synonyms* (*n*) dust, gunpowder, explosive, (*v*) grind, crush, pound, pulverise, pulverize, sprinkle, bespangle.
- пузир bladder; *synonyms* (n) cyst, vesica, balloon, capsule, utricle, vesicle, calyx, cancelli, newspaper, pod, (v) inflate.
- IIYJI pool; synonyms (n) plash, lake, pond, mere, cartel, basin, kitty, syndicate, trust, billiards, lough, store, (v) combine, merge, associate.
- пуловер sweater; synonym (n) perspirer.
- пульс pulse; *synonyms* (*n*) beat, impulse, pulsation, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, pounding, cadence, measure, pulsing, (*v*) pulsate, throb, palpitate, pound, vibrate.
- пульсація 1. beat; synonyms (v) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (n) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; antonym (v) lose, 2. pulse; synonyms (n) beat, impulse, pulsation, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, pounding, measure, pulsing, vibration, (v) palpitate, pound, vibrate, wave, quiver.
- **пульсувати 1**. beat; *synonyms* (ν) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (n) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; *antonym* (ν) lose, **2**. pulse; *synonyms* (n) beat, impulse, pulsation, heartbeat, legume, rhythm, pounding, measure, pulsing, vibration, (ν) palpitate, pound, vibrate, wave, quiver.
- HYHKT 1. point; synonyms (n) place, grade, peak, nib, edge, aim, article, degree, dot, mark, spot, phase, (v) head, direct, level, 2. item; synonyms (n) piece, detail, entry, object, point, subject, thing, affair, event, clause, component, entity, fact, feature, (adv) also, 3. article (CTATTA); synonyms (n) section, chapter, commodity, composition, discourse, essay, paper, report, review, story, ware, passage, condition, dissertation, literature, 4. clause; synonyms (n) paragraph, provision, rider,
- member, prerequisite, proviso, requirement, stipulation. ПУНКТУАЛЬНИЙ precise; synonyms (adj) exact, accurate, correct, definite, minute, careful, certain, deligned, prot, particular, accuraging a loss distinct.
- accurate, correct, definite, minute, careful, certain, delicate, neat, particular, ceremonious, clear, distinct, faithful, (v) close; *antonyms* (adj) imprecise, inaccurate, vague, rough.
- **ПУНКТУАЦІЯ** pointing; *synonym* (*n*) punctuation. **ПУНШ** punch; *synonyms* (*n*) jab, drill, cuff, die, wallop, blow, dig, knock, (*v*) poke, hit, prick, beat, perforate, stab, thrust.
- **πypπyp** purple; *synonyms* (*adj*) mauve, violet, imperial, lilac, regal, royal, embellished, majestic, (*n*) empurpled, magenta, purpleness, damask, ermine, mantle, (*ν*) empurple.
- пурпурний purple; synonyms (adj) mauve, violet, imperial, lilac, regal, royal, embellished, majestic, (n) empurpled, magenta, purpleness, damask, ermine, mantle, (v) empurple.

- **HYCK** start; synonyms (v) begin, originate, commence, drive, launch, embark, spring, activate, arise, (n) jump, onset, origin, shock, beginning, commencement; antonyms (v) end, finish, stop, conclude, halt, (n) conclusion.
- пускати let; *synonyms* (v) allow, hire, admit, lease, leave, permit, charter, have, rent, grant, authorize, cause, countenance, demise, (n) check; *antonyms* (v) forbid, prevent.
- **ПУСКОВИЙ** launching; *synonyms* (n) introduction, launch, debut, beginning, entry, initiation, fling, opening, baptism, cast, conception, entering, entrance, entranceway, entree.
- пустельний 1. desert (пустеля); synonyms (n) wilderness, (v) abandon, escape, defect, ditch, forsake, leave, relinquish, abscond, (adj) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, worth; antonyms (n) bog, (v) stay, 2. Waste; synonyms (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, dissipation, garbage, (adj) spoil, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; antonyms (v) conserve, save.
- пустеля 1. desert; synonyms (n) wilderness, (v) abandon, escape, defect, ditch, forsake, leave, relinquish, abscond, (adj) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, worth; antonyms (n) bog, (v) stay, 2. waste; synonyms (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, dissipation, garbage, (adj) spoil, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; antonyms (v) conserve, save, 3. wilderness; synonyms (n) wasteland, solitude, wildness
- пустий 1. empty (порожній); synonyms (adj) discharge, hollow, destitute, bare, blank, barren, abandoned, deserted, vain, (v) drain, clear, deplete, desolate, pour, spill; antonyms (adj) full, crowded, meaningful, packed, brimming, inhabited, occupied, swarming, cultivated, filled, laden, (v) fill, 2. vacant; synonyms (adj) empty, devoid, free, idle, unfilled, unoccupied, void, expressionless, open, vacuous, inane, available, listless, disengaged, unemployed, 3. blank; synonyms (adj) clean, vacant, deadpan, dull, impassive, inexpressive, negative, straight, white, (n) space, form, emptiness, gap, hiatus, lacuna; antonyms (adj) animated, expressive, 4. sounding; synonyms (adj) audible, looking, sonant, voiceful, intonated, soniferous, tonic, (n) investigation, depth, test.
- **ПУСТИННИЙ** desert (пустеля); *synonyms* (*n*) wilderness, (*v*) abandon, escape, defect, ditch, forsake, leave, relinquish, abscond, (*adj*) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, worth; *antonyms* (*n*) bog, (*v*) stay.
- ПУСТИНЯ desert (пустеля); synonyms (n) wilderness, (v) abandon, escape, defect, ditch, forsake, leave, relinquish, abscond, (adj) waste, barren, desolate, merit, wild, worth; antonyms (n) bog, (v) stay.
- Пустище heath; synonyms (n) heather, heathland, prairie, steppe, waste, wild, basin, desert, plain, veldt, grig, pampas, savanna.
- **ПУСТОТЛИВИЙ** naughty; *synonyms* (*adj*) bad, blue, impish, mischievous, improper, disobedient, insubordinate, wicked, evil, lewd, dark, defiant, racy, rebellious, risque; *antonyms* (*adj*) well-behaved, good.

- ПУТЬ 1. way (дорога, шлях); synonyms (n) course, method, path, passage, road, route, track, custom, direction, form, manner, means, style, fashion, habit, 2. path; synonyms (n) way, highway, line, orbit, lane, alley, avenue, corridor, itinerary, trace, walk, aisle, approach, range, access, 3. road; synonyms (n) roadway, street, thoroughfare, artery, pathway, trail, (adj) traveling, itinerant.
- **ПУХЛИНА** tumour; *synonyms* (n) tumor, neoplasm, gall.
- **пучина** gulf; *synonyms* (*n*) abyss, chasm, bay, cove, abysm, inlet, pit, ravine, rift, hollow.
- пучок 1. cluster; synonyms (n) bunch, clump, batch, group, agglomeration, collection, crowd, gang, knot, lot, tuft, (v) bundle, huddle, collect, gather; antonym (v) disperse, 2. bunch; synonyms (n) cluster, band, troop, horde, bulge, herd, accumulation, crew, knob, mass, set, throng, assortment, (v) pack, heap, 3. bundle; synonyms (n) pile, sheaf, load, package, packet, parcel, stack, wad, mint, mound, mountain, roll, truss, (v) wrap, backpack.
- **ПУШИНКА** flock; *synonyms* (*n*) bunch, crowd, cluster, band, bevy, congregation, covey, gang, herd, horde, pack, troop, (*v*) assemble, mass, (*adj*) swarm.
- **пшениця** wheat; *synonyms* (n) corn, clavus, maize, (adj) golden.
- **п'яний 1.** drunk; *synonyms* (*adj*) intoxicated, tipsy, tight, wet, inebriated, delirious, high, (*n*) inebriate, drunkard, rummy, sot; *antonym* (*adj*) sober, **2.** drunken; *synonyms* (*adj*) drunk, boozy, sottish, bibulous.
- **п'ята** heel; *synonyms* (*n*) blackguard, counter, dog, cad, scoundrel, shoe, sole, villain, bounder, (*v*) list, lean.
- п'ятдесят fifty; synonyms (n) l, lambert, liter, litre.
  п'ятка heel; synonyms (n) blackguard, counter, dog, cad, scoundrel, shoe, sole, villain, bounder, (v) list, lean.
- п'ять five; synonyms (n) cinque, quint, quintuplet, fin, ace, eight, fins, fivesome, interim, intermission, interval, jack, king, knave, (adj) quinary.

## P

- **pa6** slave; *synonyms* (n) serf, servant, bondman, inferior, thrall, bondsman, captive, vassal, dependent, (ν) labor, drudge, fag, toil, work, moil.
- paдa 1. council; synonyms (n) assembly, board, congress, consultation, convention, convocation, diet, legislature, meeting, cabinet, conclave, 2. counsel; synonyms (n) caution, advocate, advisement, admonition, attorney, counselor, exhortation, guidance, recommendation, (v) advice, advise, consult, admonish, confer, exhort, 3. senate; synonyms (n) council, parliament, senatus, storthing, witenagemote, authority, committee, house.
- радар radar; *synonyms* (n) radiolocation, beacon, monitor. радий glad; *synonyms* (adj) contented, cheerful, jubilant, gay, blithe, content, delighted, festive, delightful, bright, genial, willing, beaming, blissful, happy; *antonym* (adj) sad.

- **радикал** radical; *synonyms* (*adj*) extremist, basic, exhaustive, extreme, revolutionary, base, primary, ultra, drastic, primordial, basal, (*n*) basis, foundation, origin, group; *antonyms* (*adj*) conventional, old-fashioned, (*n*) moderate, conservative, traditionalist.
- радикальний radical; synonyms (adj) extremist, basic, exhaustive, extreme, revolutionary, base, primary, ultra, drastic, primordial, basal, (n) basis, foundation, origin, group; antonyms (adj) conventional, old-fashioned, (n) moderate, conservative, traditionalist.
- **радист** operator; *synonyms* (*n*) driver, hustler, manipulator, agent, doer, speculator, actor, employee, clerk, businessperson, captain, financier, floozie, floozy, hooker.
- радити 1. suggest; synonyms (v) allude, imply, indicate, offer, advise, hint, intimate, propose, submit, counsel, proffer, point, connote, insinuate, mean; antonym (v) withdraw, 2. counsel; synonyms (n) caution, advocate, advisement, admonition, attorney, consultation, counselor, exhortation, guidance, recommendation, (v) advice, consult, admonish, confer, exhort, 3. recommend; synonyms (v) commend, suggest, move, praise, urge, endorse, promote, introduce, approve, nominate, persuade, warn, prompt, 4. advise; synonyms (v) acquaint, inform, recommend, apprise, forewarn, instruct, notify, tell, advertise, proposition, apprize, brief, communicate, enlighten, guide; antonym (v) oppose.
- **радитися** consult; *synonyms* (*v*) confer, consider, negotiate, advise, deliberate, refer, discuss, reason, canvass, confab, confabulate, (*n*) talk.
- **радіатор** heater; *synonyms* (*n*) brasier, warmer, bullet, fastball, calefactor, cannabis, dope, fume, gage, ganja, grass, hummer, salamander, smoke, tuyere.
- **pa**πio radio; synonyms (n) wireless, broadcasting, radiotelegram, radiocommunication, tuner, television, (ν) broadcast, transmit, notify, report.
- PAДΙΟΚΟΜΕΗΤΑΤΟΡ reporter; *synonyms* (n) newsman, commentator, correspondent, journalist, columnist, reviewer, newsperson, newswoman, (ν) informant, intelligencer, authority.
- **радіолокатор** radar; *synonyms* (n) radiolocation, beacon, monitor.
- **радіолокація** radar; *synonyms* (n) radiolocation, beacon, monitor.
- радіопередача broadcasting; *synonyms* (n) dissemination, advertising, announcement, distribution, publication, publicity, revelation.
- **РАДІОПРИЙМАЧ** receiver; *synonyms* (*n*) recipient, beneficiary, cashier, earpiece, headset, liquidator, collector, phone, telephone, matrass, questor; *antonym* (*n*) donor.
- **paдioc.ŋyxaчi** audience; *synonyms* (n) hearing, interview, attendance, house, meeting, turnout, audition, congregation, crowd, following, public, spectators, (ν) auditory.
- **радіостудія** studio; *synonyms* (*n*) atelier, cabinet, accommodation, building, bungalow, cottage, den, farmhouse, igloo, manor, mansion, terrace, villa, loft.

- радісний 1. glad; synonyms (adj) contented, cheerful, jubilant, gay, blithe, content, delighted, festive, delightful, bright, genial, willing, beaming, blissful, happy; antonym (adj) sad, 2. happy (щасливий); synonyms (adj) fortunate, felicitous, buoyant, gleeful, gratified, carefree, cheery, convivial, favorable, glad, lucky, pleasant, appropriate, (n) auspicious, blessed; antonyms (adj) unhappy, dejected, depressed, miserable, sorrowful, 3. gay; synonyms (adj) gaudy, airy, brave, festal, flashy, frolicsome, jovial, jocular, animated, colorful, jocund, (n) homosexual, gallant, lesbian, (adv) dissipated.
- радість 1. joy; *synonyms* (n) delight, enjoyment, elation, gladness, glee, happiness, pleasure, bliss, ecstasy, excitement, exhilaration, exultation, fun, (v) exult, cheer; *antonyms* (n) misery, sorrow, sadness, disaster, grief, 2. sunshine; *synonyms* (n) joy, sun, sunlight, day, light, shine, brightness, daylight.
- **радіус** radius; *synonyms* (n) length, semidiameter, spoke, range, compass, scope, bar, bore, caliber, diameter, line.
- радник 1. adviser; synonyms (n) advisor, consultant, counselor, counsel, guide, prompter, teacher, agent, assistant, confidante, dealer, dictator, herald, informer, instructor, 2. councillor, 3. counsellor; synonyms (n) advocate, lawyer, mentor, pleader, counselling, advocator, counseling, leader, direction, exponent, guidance, proponent, 4. monitor; synonyms (v) check, regulate, control, eavesdrop, observe, supervise, (n) admonisher, dame, ironclad, moderator.
- pa3 1. time; synonyms (n) hour, moment, period, duration, epoch, era, measure, season, day, spell, age, instant, interval, space, tempo; antonym (n) death, 2. once; synonyms (adv) formerly, before, erstwhile, previously, already, erst, sometime, when, (n) whilom, (adi) former.
- pa30M together; synonyms (adv) jointly, conjointly, simultaneously, collectively, running, (adj) united, composed, stable, whole; antonyms (adv) individually, separately, independently, (adj) separate.
- paŭ paradise; synonyms (n) heaven, bliss, ecstasy, nirvana, utopia, death, enlightenment, gallery, happiness, rapture, dreamland, enjoyment, fairyland, (ν) bewitch, entrance; antonym (n) hell.
- **райдуга** arch; *synonyms* (*n*) arc, acute, bend, curvature, dome, archway, (*v*) curve, bow, vault, (*adj*) shrewd, sly, wily, round, crafty, consummate; *antonym* (*v*) straightness.
- район 1. area (площа); synonyms (n) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood, section, sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land, 2. region; synonyms (n) country, area, part, realm, circuit, division, locality, province, quarter, territory, belt, range, department, ground, dominion, 3. neighbourhood; synonym (n) vicinity, 4. zone; synonyms (n) layer, orbit, bed, climate, clime, course, cycle, orb, rundle, stratum, (v) partition, subdivide, 5. district; synonyms (n) community, county, jurisdiction, constituency, hemisphere, municipality, sector, state, tract, ward, environs, (adj) local, (v) zone.
- **районний** regional; *synonyms* (*adj*) district, local, parochial, sectional, neighborhood, topical, native, community, home, neighboring; *antonym* (*adj*) central.

- paκ cancer; synonyms (n) canker, tumor, growth, blight, corruption, curse, evil, disease, mormal, plague, poison, gangrene, (adj) leukemia, sting, thorn.
- **paka** shrine; *synonyms* (n) monument, altar, temple, cenotaph, church, grave, memorial, scrine, enshrinement, sanctorium, sepulcher, testament, testimonial, (v) enshrine, saint.
- paketa 1. rocket; synonyms (n) missile, bomb, bullet, projectile, arugula, brickbat, carcass, grenade, (v) soar, rise, skyrocket, zoom; antonyms (v) plummet, dawdle,
  2. missile; synonyms (n) shot, rocket, bolt, explosive, quoit, ammunition, club, messenger, missive, weapon, beast, bird, bludgeon, cruise, cudgel.
- раковина sink; *synonyms* (n) sag, basin, (v) decline, dip, droop, fall, set, descend, drop, fell, bury, collapse, decay, flag, founder; *antonyms* (v) rise, float.
- pama 1. frame; synonyms (n) design, border, build, fashion, anatomy, chassis, (v) form, construct, fabricate, draft, erect, make, forge, constitute, contrive, 2. carriage; synonyms (n) attitude, transport, behavior, conveyance, air, coach, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, (v) bearing.
- **рана** wound; *synonyms* (*n*) bruise, harm, pain, injury, scratch, (*v*) hurt, cut, damage, offend, injure, stab, sting, insult, maim, bite.
- ранг 1. degree; synonyms (n) class, extent, condition, level, order, place, rank, title, caliber, status, amount, caste, gradation, grade, height, 2. state (держава); synonyms (n) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, (v) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, articulate, (adj) national; antonyms (v) deny, (adj) private, 3. rank; synonyms (n) range, file, line, degree, quality, rate, post, arrangement, (adj) putrid, luxuriant, (v) arrange, classify, array, group, estimate; antonym (adj) fresh.
- **ранити** wound; *synonyms* (*n*) bruise, harm, pain, injury, scratch, (*v*) hurt, cut, damage, offend, injure, stab, sting, insult, maim, bite.
- раніше 1. formerly; synonyms (adv) before, already, earlier, aforetime, first, erst, erstwhile, once, previously, afore, beforehand, originally, sometime, sometimes, 2. before; synonyms (prep) fore, beyond, facing, (adv) above, ahead, ago, forward, ere, formerly, heretofore, (adj) preceding, prior, rather; antonyms (prep) later, behind, after, afterward, 3. previously; synonym (adv) antecedently.
- ранній 1. early; synonyms (adj) initial, first, primitive, prompt, young, quick, embryonic, matutinal, old, original, past, precocious, (adv) betimes, soon, earlier; antonyms (adj) delayed, last-minute, slow, (adv) late, 2. youthful; synonyms (adj) immature, fresh, green, juvenile, adolescent, vernal, childish, new, tender, beardless; antonym (adj) adult.
- paHo 1. early; synonyms (adj) initial, first, primitive, prompt, young, quick, embryonic, matutinal, old, original, past, precocious, (adv) betimes, soon, earlier; antonyms (adj) delayed, last-minute, slow, (adv) late, 2. soon; synonyms (adv) shortly, early, presently, anon, immediately, directly, now, promptly, quickly, soonly, briefly, erelong, fast, speedily, afterward.

- **ранок** morning; *synonyms* (n) dawn, daybreak, sunrise, daylight, forenoon, morn, aurora, cockerow, dawning, dayspring, sunup; *antonym* (n) dusk.
- **PAHOPT 1.** report; *synonyms* (n) description, gossip, notice, name, fame, message, narration, narrative, news, notification, recital, record, (ν) account, describe, communicate; *antonym* (n) fact, **2.** return; *synonyms* (n) yield, pay, recompense, refund, restitution, proceeds, income, (ν) recur, reimburse, render, repay, restoration, restore, retort, answer; *antonyms* (n) departure, abolition, confiscation, recovery, (ν) keep.
- **раптовий** sudden; *synonyms* (*adj*) abrupt, hasty, precipitous, quick, rash, unexpected, steep, dramatic, headlong, immediate, precipitate, sharp, swift, unforeseen, impulsive; *antonyms* (*adj*) gradual, considered.
- **PAILTOBO** abruptly; *synonyms* (*adv*) suddenly, precipitously, short, bluntly, brusquely, curtly, gruffly, rudely, sharply, shortly, unawares; *antonyms* (*adv*) gently, gradually, civilly.
- **PARITTOM 1.** suddenly; *synonyms* (*adv*) abruptly, short, sudden, presto, dead, hastily, rapidly, fast, instantly, sharply, unawares, precipitously, (*adj*) quickly, immediately, instanter; *antonyms* (*adv*) gradually, increasingly, predictably, slowly, **2.** bang; *synonyms* (*n*) clap, beat, smack, knock, slap, smash, strike, blast, blow, bump, (*v*) hit, slam, bash, boom, clatter.
- paca 1. race; synonyms (n) kind, dash, family, career, competition, people, kin, nation, (v) course, run, rush, fly, hasten, hurry, (adj) lineage, 2. stock; synonyms (n) breed, store, goods, ancestry, descent, hoard, origin, race, backlog, birth, commodity, extraction, (adj) regular, (v) handle, supply.
- **расизм** racism; *synonyms* (n) racialism, prejudice, bigotry, chauvinism, fascism, apartheid, illiberality, one-sidedness, partiality, sectarianism, unfairness.
- **PACHET** racist; *synonyms* (*n*) racialist, bigot, radical, diehard, dogmatist, extremist, chauvinist, hypocrite, (*adj*) intolerant, antiblack, chauvinistic.
- **расовий 1**. race; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, dash, family, career, competition, people, kin, nation, (*v*) course, run, rush, fly, hasten, hurry, (*adj*) lineage, **2**. racial; *synonyms* (*adj*) ethnic, ancestral, cultural, hereditary, lineal, paternal, patriarchical, phyletic, phylogenetic.
- **ратифікація** validation; *synonyms* (n) confirmation, proof, substantiation, verification, establishment, justification, approval, corroboration, administration, basis, brass, constitution, demonstration, ecesis, explanation.
- ратифікувати confirm; *synonyms* (v) affirm, approve, corroborate, establish, prove, validate, verify, clinch, assert, assure, authenticate, authorize, certify, demonstrate, justify; *antonyms* (v) disprove, contradict.
- рахівник accountant; synonyms (n) auditor, teller, cashier, controller, almoner, liquidator, clerk, accomptant, comptroller, logothete, questor, receiver, steward, trustee, (adi) accountable.
- paxyBatu 1. count; synonyms (n) number, calculation, computation, total, (v) calculate, compute, tally, account, cipher, consider, estimate, matter, reckon, weigh, add, 2. reckon; synonyms (v) deem, count, enumerate, judge,

- hold, guess, gauge, rate, measure, make, assess, believe, esteem, expect, figure, **3**. number; *synonyms* (*n*) amount, score, act, issue, volume, character, company, digit, multitude, numeral, quota, (*v*) aggregate, come, list tell
- рахунок 1. account; synonyms (n) bill, narrative, reckoning, regard, score, tale, description, explanation, history, narration, reason, recital, story, tab, (v) report, 2. score; synonyms (n) mark, count, scratch, line, groove, scotch, account, check, debt, (v) notch, cut, tally, achieve, dash, gain, 3. bill; synonyms (n) beak, advertisement, card, invoice, poster, receipt, act, banknote, measure, notice, program, (v) placard, advertise, charge, list, 4. count (рахувати); synonyms (n) number, calculation, computation, total, amount, (v) calculate, compute, cipher, consider, estimate, matter, reckon, weigh, add, appreciate, 5. chalk; synonyms (n) trace, clod, clot, gravel, mold, subsoil, clay, cledge, (adj) ivory, lily, (v) pastel, whiten, charcoal, color, crayons.
- **раціональний** rational; *synonyms* (*adj*) intellectual, reasonable, intelligent, judicious, logical, sane, mental, just, practical, sagacious, sensible, sober, sound, wise, lucid; *antonyms* (*adj*) irrational, illogical, anxious.
- **раціональність** rationality; *synonyms* (n) rationalness, reason, reasonableness, sanity, sensibleness, cause, coherence, consistency, fairness, ground, grounds, intellect, judgment, mentality, moderateness.
- **PBATH** tear; *synonyms* (n) split, rupture, rent, (v) break, rip, crack, pull, rend, lacerate, race, run, rush, slit, rive, cleave.
- **PBATHCH** tear; *synonyms* (*n*) split, rupture, rent, (*v*) break, rip, crack, pull, rend, lacerate, race, run, rush, slit, rive, cleave.
- **pe** re; *synonyms* (*prep*) about, concerning, regarding, on, (*n*) ray, beam, radium, rhenium, shaft.
- **pea6i.nitaqis** rehabilitation; *synonyms* (n) reclamation, reinstatement, renewal, repair, replacement, improvement, redress, refilling, reformation, treatment, analysis, cure, healing, physiotherapy, psychoanalysis.
- **реагувати 1**. respond; *synonyms* (*v*) answer, reply, return, counter, rejoin, echo, react, retort, acknowledge, say, (*adj*) correspond, tally, (*n*) response; *antonym* (*v*) ignore, **2**. react; *synonyms* (*v*) respond, act, oppose, recoil, behave.
- **реактивний** jet; *synonyms* (*n*) squirt, fountain, flow, spout, spray, airplane, current, outpouring, (*v*) gush, spurt, fly, pour, flood, emit, (*adj*) raven.
- peaktop reactor; synonym (n) stator.
- **peaκція 1.** reaction; synonyms (n) answer, response, backlash, reply, effect, reception, rejoinder, repercussion, retort, feeling, 2. response; synonyms (n) reaction, echo, return, respond, chant, chaunt, comeback, hymn, repartee, (v) endurance, experience, (adī) sympathy, cordiality, fraternization, rapprochement.
- **peanisatis** realization; *synonyms* (n) execution, accomplishment, awareness, comprehension, fulfillment, implementation, actualization, fruition, realisation, completion, grasp, achievement, actualisation, attainment, consummation.
- **peanism** realism; *synonyms* (n) naturalism, reality, authenticity, fidelity, realness, truth, verisimilitude,

- accuracy, certainty, closeness, dependability, expediency, faithfulness, reasonableness, sensibleness; *antonym* (n) idealism.
- реалізувати 1. realize; synonyms (v) fulfill, achieve, perform, discover, attain, accomplish, appreciate, complete, execute, know, make, recognize, sense, obtain, effect, 2. negotiate; synonyms (v) bargain, treat, mediate, intercede, confer, discuss, arbitrate, arrange, trade, contract, manage, barter, consult, haggle, pass.
- **реалістичний** realistic; *synonyms* (*adj*) naturalistic, graphic, lifelike, practical, pragmatic, truthful, feasible, actual, hardheaded, sober, attainable, authentic, photographic; *antonym* (*adj*) unrealistic.
- **реальний 1**. real; *synonyms* (*adj*) genuine, material, physical, true, concrete, literal, natural, positive, pure, native, right, good, absolute, (*n*) authentic, (*v*) actual; *antonyms* (*adj*) unreal, imaginary, apparent, artificial, fake, bogus, deceptive, false, fantasy, imitation, insubstantial, mock, nominal, (*v*) pretend, **2**. tangible; *synonyms* (*adj*) substantial, real, palpable, perceptible, evident, corporeal, definite, sensible, adequate, bodily, commensurate, competent, discernible, (*n*) applicable, available; *antonym* (*adj*) intangible.
- **реальність** reality; *synonyms* (*n*) fact, existence, actuality, certainty, realism, being, realness, truth, entity, genuineness, loyalty, positive, substance, (*v*) deed, efficiency; *antonyms* (*n*) fantasy, delusion, dream, imagination, vision.
- **PEBPO** heel; *synonyms* (*n*) blackguard, counter, dog, cad, scoundrel, shoe, sole, villain, bounder, (*v*) list, lean.
- **peB** roar; *synonyms* (*n*) boom, thunder, shout, bark, noise, peal, (*v*) bellow, cry, bawl, howl, clatter, blare, call, holler, (*adj*) bluster; *antonym* (*v*) whisper.
- **PeBahii** revenge; *synonyms* (n) reprisal, retaliation, retribution, vengeance, grudge, payback, punishment, revengement, (ν) avenge, retaliate, repay, requite, vindicate, punish.
- **peBi3i9** 1. revision; *synonyms* (n) alteration, change, modification, amendment, review, revisal, revise, reconsideration, adjustment, rewriting, improvement, rescript, retrospect, 2. audit; *synonyms* (n) survey, examination, scrutiny, (v) check, balance, inspect, examine, prove, scrutinize.
- **peBi3op** controller; *synonyms* (*n*) administrator, superintendent, accountant, comptroller, control, director, governor, manager, regulator, ruler, leader, boss, head, supervisor.
- **PEBISYBATH** audit; *synonyms* (n) survey, examination, review, scrutiny, (v) check, balance, inspect, examine, prove, scrutinize.
- **ревнивий** jealous; *synonyms* (*adj*) covetous, distrustful, envious, suspicious, resentful, invidious, green, grudging.
- **ревнощі** jealousy; *synonyms* (n) suspicion, competition, contention, distrust, qualm, scruple, doubt, challenge, contest, diffidence, dissatisfaction, emulation, enmity, jealoushood, misdoubt.
- **революційний** revolutionary; *synonyms* (*adj*) radical, mutineer, rebellious, mutinous, fanatic, lawless, militant, (*n*) insurgent, rebel, extremist, insurrectionist,

- revolutionist, subversive, activist, anarchist; *antonym* (*adj*) old-fashioned.
- **революціонер** revolutionary; *synonyms* (*adj*) radical, mutineer, rebellious, mutinous, fanatic, lawless, militant, (*n*) insurgent, rebel, extremist, insurrectionist, revolutionist, subversive, activist, anarchist; *antonym* (*adj*) old-fashioned.
- **революція** revolution; *synonyms* (*n*) change, gyration, insurrection, mutiny, rebellion, revolt, rotation, turn, alteration, cycle, coup, circle, circulation, (*v*) circuit, (*adj*) disturbance
- **PEBTH** roar; *synonyms* (n) boom, thunder, shout, bark, noise, peal, (v) bellow, cry, bawl, howl, clatter, blare, call, holler, (adi) bluster; **antonym** (v) whisper.
- **регенерація** regeneration; *synonyms* (*n*) revival, rebirth, sanctification, renaissance, resurgence, revitalization, conversion, inspiration, (*adj*) adoption, beatification.
- **perioH** region; *synonyms* (*n*) land, country, field, area, district, domain, part, realm, circuit, division, locality, neighborhood, province, quarter, territory.
- **регіональний** regional; *synonyms* (*adj*) district, local, parochial, sectional, neighborhood, topical, native, community, home, neighboring; *antonym* (*adj*) central.
- **perit 1**. laughter; *synonyms* (n) amusement, fun, laugh, merriment, hilarity, mirth, derision, happiness; *antonym* (n) sadness, **2**. roar; *synonyms* (n) boom, thunder, shout, bark, noise, peal, (v) bellow, cry, bawl, howl, clatter, blare, call, holler, (adj) bluster; *antonym* (v) whisper.
- **регламент** agenda; *synonyms* (*n*) schedule, agendum, diary, docket, plan, note, almanac, bill, book, card, chart, datebook, list, outline, table.
- **perpecia** regression; *synonyms* (n) regress, lapse, setback, degeneration, deterioration, decay, relapse, retreat, retrogression, reverse, reversion, fixation.
- регулювання 1. adjustment; synonyms (n) adaptation, accommodation, alteration, control, fit, settlement, allowance, arrangement, change, disposition, modification, standardization, agreement, amendment, (adj) adaption, 2. regulation; synonyms (n) rule, adjustment, law, order, government, canon, decree, ordinance, management, direction, conduct, act, formula, restriction, (adj) precept; antonym (n) chaos.
- регулювати 1. regulate; *synonyms* (v) adjust, arrange, manage, control, direct, order, determine, fix, govern, influence, modulate, regularize, align, check, correct, 2. adjust; *synonyms* (v) temper, accommodate, adapt, acclimatize, balance, fit, reconcile, regulate, set, alter, change, compose, conform, (*adj*) dress, (n) square.
- **регулярний** regular; *synonyms* (*adj*) normal, orderly, steady, common, customary, general, methodical, ordinary, formal, accurate, correct, (*n*) fixed, constant, firm, (*v*) conventional; *antonyms* (*adj*) irregular, erratic, inconsistent, unusual, variable, asymmetrical, extraordinary, straight.
- **регулярно** regularly; *synonyms* (*adv*) often, generally, always, customarily, frequently, normally, repeatedly, usually, commonly, continually, evenly, ever, habitually, methodically, mostly; *antonyms* (*adv*) inconsistently, unusually, constantly.

- **редактор** editor; *synonyms* (n) redactor, writer, editioner, journalist, press.
- **редакція** wording; *synonyms* (n) diction, phraseology, phrasing, language, expression, verbiage, style, text.
- **peecrp 1**. list; *synonyms* (*n*) catalog, catalogue, file, inclination, index, schedule, calendar, enumeration, inventory, (*v*) lean, tilt, enter, enumerate, incline, itemize, **2**. register; *synonyms* (*n*) record, list, note, book, account, roll, annals, (*v*) enroll, chronicle, indicate, read, show, mark, enlist, display.
- **peectpatop** recorder; *synonyms* (*n*) clerk, registrar, register, reporter, enroll, schedule, telltale.
- **peccrpauis** 1. registration; *synonyms* (n) enrollment, registering, enrolment, entering, entry, register, record, registry, adjustment, readjustment, 2. record; *synonyms* (n) list, account, book, disk, document, history, deed, (ν) chronicle, file, enter, note, report, score, inscribe, mark, 3. recording; *synonyms* (n) album, transcription, scan, disc, cartridge, cassette, cutting, footage, hearing, program, release, show, single, transmission, video.
- peccrpyBatu 1. record; synonyms (n) register, list, account, book, disk, document, history, deed, (v) chronicle, file, enter, note, report, score, inscribe, 2. file; synonyms (n) archive, procession, rank, record, roll, series, string, line, range, (v) order, rasp, scrape, abrade, arrange, grind, 3. register; synonyms (n) inventory, catalogue, annals, index, listing, registry, (v) enroll, indicate, read, show, mark, enlist, catalog, display, schedule.
- **PEECTPYBATUCA** register; synonyms (n) record, list, inventory, note, catalogue, book, account, roll, (ν) file, enroll, chronicle, enter, indicate, read, show.
- режим 1. regime; *synonyms* (*n*) administration, government, dynasty, management, regimen, reign, rule, authorities, plan, 2. schedule; *synonyms* (*n*) list, agenda, catalog, program, calendar, catalogue, inventory, table, roll, index, chart, docket, fare, (*v*) register, book.
- **режисер** director; *synonyms* (n) commander, manager, administrator, boss, chief, superintendent, chairman, coach, controller, guide, head, leader, master, principal, (v) conductor.
- pesepB reserve; synonyms (n) backup, modesty, reservation, substitute, bank, cache, diffidence, hoard, (v) keep, save, book, maintain, appropriate, engage, hold; antonyms (n) openness, friendliness, informality, warmth.
- **PE3EPBALISI** reservation; *synonyms* (*n*) reserve, limitation, booking, condition, qualification, modesty, exception, constraint, order, doubt, misgiving, query, saving, uncertainty; *antonym* (*n*) certainty.
- **резервний** 1. reserved; *synonyms* (*adj*) modest, distant, coy, diffident, reticent, bashful, aloof, frigid, quiet, retiring, shy, formal, humble, moderate, (*n*) cold; *antonyms* (*adj*) outgoing, open, forthcoming, relaxed, uninhibited, warm, 2. spare; *synonyms* (*adj*) reserve, slender, excess, save, slight, additional, lean, slim, thin, bare, (*y*) free, meager, exempt, (*n*) extra, backup.
- **pe3epByap 1**. reservoir; *synonyms* (n) cistern, fountain, well, lake, store, bank, hoard, reserve, stock, supply,

- tank, **2**. basin; *synonyms* (*n*) bowl, pot, depression, dock, hollow, washbasin, washbowl, basinful, cavity, cup, lavatory, pool, sink, washstand, dip, **3**. container; *synonyms* (*n*) box, jar, package, basket, carton, cylinder, envelope, pan, vessel, bin, parcel, barrel, bottle, jug, pack, **4**. tank; *synonyms* (*n*) reservoir, container, cooler, belly, boiler, fermentor, jail, stomach, tankful, thickener, tub, cabinet, (*v*) fake.
- **PE3EPBYBAHHЯ** reservation; *synonyms* (*n*) reserve, limitation, booking, condition, qualification, modesty, exception, constraint, order, doubt, misgiving, query, saving, uncertainty; *antonym* (*n*) certainty.
- pesepByBaTH reserve; synonyms (n) backup, modesty, reservation, substitute, bank, cache, diffidence, hoard, (v) keep, save, book, maintain, appropriate, engage, hold; antonyms (n) openness, friendliness, informality, warmth
- **резидент** resident; *synonyms* (*adj*) native, inmate, local, nonmigratory, (*n*) inhabitant, occupant, dweller, tenant, citizen, lodger, occupier, representative, (*v*) resiant; *antonyms* (*adj*) migratory, (*n*) landlord, drifter.
- **резиденція 1**. residence; *synonyms* (n) abode, dwelling, home, house, accommodation, domicile, lodging, occupancy, habitation, mansion, place, manse, abidance, apartment, hall, **2**. palace; *synonyms* (n) court, castle, chateau.
- **резолюція** resolution; *synonyms* (*n*) decision, determination, answer, conclusion, firmness, purpose, resolve, solution, decomposition, analysis, constancy, dissolution, fortitude, perseverance, resoluteness; *antonym* (*n*) indecisiveness.
- **результат 1**. result; synonyms (n) consequence, fruit, issue, outcome, aftermath, answer, conclusion, effect, end, produce, outgrowth, (v) ensue, follow, eventuate, arise; antonym (v) cause, 2. effect; synonyms (n) product, result, sequel, impression, (v) accomplish, achieve, create, complete, do, bring, carry, execute, induce, perform, use; antonym (n) reason, 3. consequent; synonyms (adj) ensuing, following, resultant, resulting, sequent, attendant, consequential, next, succeeding, successive, (v) subsequent, 4. event; synonyms (n) affair, case, occurrence, circumstance, contingency, fact, happening, incident, time, chance, accident, adventure, episode, eventuality, experience, 5. conclusion; synonyms (n) closure, close, cessation, completion, termination, decision, dissolution, ending, epilogue, finale, finish, last, resolution, tail, (v) closing; antonyms (n) beginning, start, opening, preface, 6. issue; synonyms (n) egress, event, exit, progeny, denouement, (v) flow, emanate, emerge, release, discharge, gush, circulate, debouch, distribute, emit, 7. outcome (наслідок); synonyms (n) development, corollary, purpose, upshot, offspring, impact, fate, implication, payoff, solution, force, 8. purpose; synonyms (n) aim, plan, design, mind, purport, resolve, motive, determination, function, goal, idea, (v) intention, project, object, intend, **9**. termination; synonyms (n) expiration, abolition, stop, extinction, extremity, discontinuance, bound, cancellation, expiry, abortion, breakup, limit, consummation, death, terminal, 10. product; synonyms (n) output, merchandise, proceeds,

- crop, article, commodity, composition, manufacture, harvest, goods, production, work, yield, gain, ware, 11. offspring; *synonyms* (n) brood, children, family, child, descendant, descendants, lineage, posterity, race, seed, successor, young, (v) breed, generation, increase, 12. output; *synonyms* (n) turnout, outturn, expenditure.
- pesione 1. brief; synonyms (adj) concise, short, abridge, little, summary, transient, short-lived, abrupt, abbreviated, brusque, compendious, curt, (n) abstract, digest, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) long, long-drawnout, long-winded, permanent, lengthy, time-consuming, 2. abstract; synonyms (adj) theoretical, academic, (v) filch, extract, lift, purloin, remove, (n) synopsis, abridgement, epitome, abridgement, brief, outline, precis, resume; antonym (adj) concrete, 3. resume; synonyms (v) recover, continue, regain, restart, summarize, revert, adopt, renew, retake, summarise, (n) recapitulation, review, sum, survey, 4. summary; synonyms (n) compendium, report, conspectus, condensation, gist, rundown, sketch, summarization, précis, roundup, profile, (adj) succinct, laconic, condensed, abridged.
- **резюмувати** brief; *synonyms* (*adj*) concise, short, abridge, little, summary, transient, short-lived, abrupt, abbreviated, brusque, compendious, curt, (*n*) abstract, digest, (*v*) compact; *antonyms* (*adj*) long, long-drawnout, long-winded, permanent, lengthy, time-consuming.
- **рей**д raid; *synonyms* (*n*) attack, inroad, incursion, invasion, onset, descent, (*v*) foray, bust, maraud, assault, pillage, sortie, loot, assail, invade; *antonym* (*n*) retreat.
- **рейка** rail; *synonyms* (n) bar, balustrade, handrail, railing, fence, banister, track, path, pale, paling, bolt, barrier, (v) inveigh, vituperate, fulminate.
- **peŭc 1.** passage; synonyms (n) aisle, course, channel, corridor, gangway, hall, journey, entry, way, entrance, lobby, duct, opening, avenue, citation, 2. run; synonyms (v) flow, rule, dash, gush, race, career, conduct, direct, function, go, hasten, (n) pass, campaign, drive, (adi) stream.
- **реквізнція** press; *synonyms* (*n*) jam, closet, (*v*) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (*adj*) constrain.
- **реквізувати** press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- реклама 1. advertisement; synonyms (n) announcement, declaration, ad, advert, advertising, bill, circular, notice, publication, advertizement, advertizing, placard, poster, 2. advertising; synonyms (n) advertisement, promotion, propaganda, publicity, exposure, buildup, hype, publicizing, puff; ballyhoo, ballyhooing, blasting, broadcasting, build-up, campaign, 3. publicity; synonyms (n) notoriety, disclosure.
- PEKJAMAIII claim; synonyms (n) call, charge, allegation, privilege, right, title, (v) demand, ask, assert, exact, arrogate, contend, need, require, requisition; antonyms (v) deny, disclaim, forfeit.
- **рекламування 1**. boost; *synonyms* (*n*) jump, push, assist, (*v*) advance, advertise, amplify, augment, hike, increase, promote, raise, thrust, bolster, elevate, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) disappointment, (*v*) decrease, knock, drop, undermine. **2**. advertising; *synonyms* (*n*)

- ad, advert, advertisement, advertizement, advertizing, promotion, propaganda, publicity, exposure, buildup, hype, publicizing, puff, ballyhoo, ballyhooing.
- рекламувати 1. boost; synonyms (n) jump, push, assist, (v) advance, advertise, amplify, augment, hike, increase, promote, raise, thrust, bolster, elevate, encourage; antonyms (n) disappointment, (v) decrease, knock, drop, undermine, 2. boom; synonyms (n) bang, roar, noise, bar, din, peal, (v) blast, blare, flourish, sound, thrive, thunder, bellow, clang, prosper; antonyms (n) depression, (v) collapse, decline.
- **рекомендація** recommendation; *synonyms* (*n*) praise, commendation, advice, counsel, suggestion, advocacy, reference, approval, proposal, admonition, endorsement, exhortation, testimonial.
- **рекомендувати 1**. recommend; *synonyms* (*ν*) advise, advocate, counsel, propose, commend, offer, suggest, move, praise, urge, endorse, promote, introduce, approve, exhort, **2**. counsel; *synonyms* (*n*) caution, advisement, admonition, attorney, consultation, counselor, exhortation, guidance, recommendation, (*ν*) advice, consult, admonish, confer, warn, direct.
- **реконструкція** reconstruction; *synonyms* (*n*) restoration, reconstitution, repair, reestablishment, rehabilitation, reinstatement, renewal, reformation, conversion, change, fossil, innovation, overhaul, redecoration, remembrance.
- **рекор**д record; *synonyms* (n) register, list, account, book, disk, document, history, deed, (v) chronicle, file, enter, note, report, score, inscribe.
- **PERPYT** recruit; *synonyms* (*v*) draft, enlist, raise, enrol, enter, levy, retrieve, enroll, recover, (*n*) novice, beginner, conscript, draftee, freshman, refresh.
- **ректор** president (президент); *synonyms* (n) chairman, chief, chair, chairperson, chairwoman, leader, boss, head, principal, speaker, emperor, imperator, king, majesty.
- **релаксація** relaxation; *synonyms* (n) ease, diversion, amusement, pastime, entertainment, recreation, rest, leisure, comfort, quiet, remission, repose, respite, peace, hobby.
- **релевантний** relevant; *synonyms* (*adj*) appropriate, pertinent, apt, important, apposite, material, crucial, related, suitable, pat, apropos, relative, (*n*) germane, applicable, felicitous; *antonyms* (*adj*) irrelevant, unrelated.
- **релевантність** relevance; *synonyms* (*n*) connection, cogency, importance, pertinency, suitability, significance, appropriateness, bearing, concern, relevancy, use.
- **релігійний** religious; *synonyms* (adj) pious, devout, divine, sacred, devoted, godly, holy, saintly, scrupulous, ghostly, solemn, spiritual, strict, (n) monk, (v) earnest; antonym (adj) secular.
- **релігія** religion; *synonyms* (*n*) piety, creed, faith, cult, denomination, sect, church, devotion, holiness, persuasion.
- рельєф 1. relief; synonyms (n) comfort, aid, consolation, ease, help, relaxation, release, respite, solace, abatement, alleviation, encouragement, redress, rest, (v) assistance, 2. lay; synonyms (v) place, put, fix, set, deposit, install,

- lie, invest, bear, allay, arrange, bet, (*adj*) secular, (*n*) ballad, pitch.
- **рельєфний** prominent; *synonyms* (*adj*) eminent, notable, noted, great, celebrated, distinguished, famous, illustrious, leading, noticeable, obvious, outstanding, salient, striking, (*v*) conspicuous; *antonyms* (*adj*) inconspicuous, unknown, minor.
- рельєфність relief; synonyms (n) comfort, aid, consolation, ease, help, relaxation, release, respite, solace, abatement, alleviation, encouragement, redress, rest, (v) assistance.
- pemec.10 1. craft; synonyms (n) boat, ability, art, cunning, trade, artfulness, guile, fraud, shift, artifice, business, deceit, job, occupation, profession, 2. trade; synonyms (n) deal, barter, commerce, swap, switch, clientele, craft, employment, interchange, calling, (v) change, exchange, merchandise, bargain, sell; antonyms (n) purchase, (adj) charitable, 3. skill; synonyms (n) capability, capacity, knack, faculty, finesse, accomplishment, address, adroitness, aptitude, cleverness, competence, expertise, facility, handicraft, (adj) dexterity; antonyms (n) clumsiness, inability, incompetence.
- **ремінь** belt; *synonyms* (n) ribbon, area, strap, knock, strip, zone, bang, (v) band, hit, wallop, whack, beat, smash, whip, thrash.
- **pemoht** repair; *synonyms* (n) fix, overhaul, (ν) remedy, mend, patch, redress, correct, cure, compensate, doctor, renovate, restore, heal, amend, go; *antonym* (ν) break.
- **ремонтувати** repair; *synonyms* (n) fix, overhaul, (v) remedy, mend, patch, redress, correct, cure, compensate, doctor, renovate, restore, heal, amend, go; *antonym* (v) break
- **penecanc** renaissance; *synonyms* (*n*) rebirth, revival, renascence, renewal, instauration, conversion, metempsychosis, reincarnation, reappearance, rejuvenation, repair, revitalization.
- **РЕНТА** rent; *synonyms* (*n*) breach, cleft, fissure, lease, let, crevice, break, crack, tear, hole, flaw, fracture, (*v*) hire, charter, engage.
- **рентабельний 1.** utility; *synonyms* (*n*) use, usefulness, service, value, avail, purpose, advantage, help, helpfulness, benefit, effectiveness, expediency, profit, convenience, (*adj*) functional, **2.** profitable; *synonyms* (*adj*) productive, advantageous, beneficial, fruitful, helpful, good, gainful, lucrative, useful, desirable, economic, fat, valuable, expedient, handy; *antonyms* (*adj*) unprofitable, dependent.
- PEHTAGEJIbHICTb efficiency; synonyms (n) capability, effectiveness, ability, efficacy, effect, capacity, aptitude, energy, output, potency, proficiency, ease, (v) agency, action; antonyms (n) inefficiency, incompetence, largeness.
- **репатися** chap; *synonyms* (n) fellow, person, blighter, crack, cranny, crevice, guy, lad, man, beau, scissure, chink, cleft, cuss, fella; *antonym* (n) woman.
- **репертуар** repertoire; *synonym* (*n*) repertory. **репетитор 1**. coach; *synonyms* (*n*) trainer, tutor, instructor, teacher, autobus, bus, carriage, charabanc, stagecoach, cart, (*v*) train, educate, groom, instruct, (*adj*) prime, **2**. tutor; *synonyms* (*n*) mentor, master, guardian,

- lecturer, educator, professor, academic, don, institutor, (v) coach, school, teach, edify, guide, (adj) cultivate.
- **репетиція** rehearsal; *synonyms* (n) narration, recital, practice, preparation, repetition, description, account, explanation, narrative.
- **peπoprep** reporter; *synonyms* (n) newsman, commentator, correspondent, journalist, columnist, reviewer, newsperson, newswoman, (ν) informant, intelligencer, authority.
- **репрезентувати** represent; *synonyms* (v) depict, portray, act, be, describe, embody, exemplify, illustrate, play, enact, make, impersonate, comprise, constitute, (*adi*) express.
- **penpecia** repression; *synonyms* (*n*) constraint, restraint, coercion, confinement, check, suppression, cohibition, despotism, domination; *antonyms* (*n*) democracy, expression.
- репродукція reproduction; synonyms (n) replica, propagation, duplicate, breeding, copy, generation, copying, facsimile, procreation, replication, reappearance, image, duplication, (adj) fake, imitation; antonym (adj) genuine.
- penyrauia 1. reputation; synonyms (n) fame, name, prestige, distinction, honor, face, celebrity, character, credit, report, notoriety, prominence, repute, (v) esteem, (adj) renown, 2. character; synonyms (n) kind, nature, note, part, quality, role, type, brand, constitution, description, disposition, eccentric, spirit, tone, standing, 3. odour; synonyms (n) fragrance, flavour, aroma, smell, odor, scent, flavor, feel, feeling, look, olfaction, smelling.
- **pecopa** spring (Весна); *synonyms* (*n*) jump, leap, bound, fountain, skip, source, dance, rise, (*v*) hop, caper, bounce, dive, originate, recoil, (*adj*) elastic.
- **респектабельний** respectable; *synonyms* (*adj*) reputable, considerable, decorous, decent, estimable, fair, good, honorable, proper, creditable, passable, becoming, honest, goodish, goodly; *antonym* (*adj*) disreputable.
- **республіка** republic; *synonyms* (*n*) commonwealth, democracy, state, nation, country.
- **республіканський** republican; *synonyms* (*n*) commoner, democrat, plebeian, roturier.
- реставрація restoration; synonyms (n) restitution, reinstatement, renewal, renovation, restore, revival, regaining, repair, return, rejuvenation, recession, recuperation, reform, regeneration, (v) amends; antonyms (n) confiscation, reduction.
- **реставрувати** restore; *synonyms* (v) mend, refresh, reinstate, renew, renovate, fix, rehabilitate, rejuvenate, repay, replace, reimburse, heal, reconstruct, recover, (*adj*) repair; *antonym* (v) keep.
- **pectopaH** restaurant; *synonyms* (n) cafeteria, canteen, bistro, coffeehouse, buffet, cafe, refectory, café, nightclub.
- **pecypc** resource; synonyms (n) expedient, imagination, stock, device, facility, asset, contrivance, resourcefulness, shift, source, (v) recourse, resort, refuge.

- **ресурси** resource; *synonyms* (n) expedient, imagination, stock, device, facility, asset, contrivance, resourcefulness, shift, source, (v) recourse, resort, refuge.
- ретельний 1. thorough; synonyms (adj) complete, full, absolute, exhaustive, good, profound, careful, comprehensive, detailed, extensive, meticulous, painstaking, sweeping, entire, close; antonyms (adj) superficial, partial, careless, sketchy, slack, 2. accurate; synonyms (adj) exact, precise, correct, faithful, true, authentic, literal, nice, right, strict, truthful, scientific, delicate, express, faultless; antonyms (adj) inaccurate, false, wrong, 3. rigorous; synonyms (adj) harsh, rigid, austere, hard, accurate, cruel, exacting, stern, brutal, inflexible, severe, stiff, stringent, biting, demanding; antonym (adj) easy, 4. severe; synonyms (adj) inclement, rigorous, rough, arduous, bad, cutting, grim, heavy, intense, serious, acute, atrocious, bitter, caustic, (v) poignant; antonyms (adj) gentle, mild, lenient, slight, lax, 5. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, decent, difficult, enjoyable, particular, elegant; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible.
- **ретельність** application; *synonyms* (n) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, demand, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, call. claim.
- **ретельно** closely; *synonyms* (*adv*) tightly, close, narrowly, nearly, intimately, strictly, thickly, almost, accurately, attentively, carefully, exactly, intently, near, precisely; *antonyms* (*adv*) distantly, loosely.
- **peropta** boiler; *synonyms* (*n*) kettle, furnace, heater, banality, evaporator, seether, cistern, container, kettleful, kiln, oven, reservoir, timpani, tympani, tympanum.
- **ретроспективний** retrospective; *synonyms* (*adj*) retroactive, thoughtful, conservative, retrograde, traditional, (*n*) demonstration, display, exposition, fair, presentation, show, showing, showcase; *antonym* (*adj*) forward-looking.
- **PEΦEPAT** abstract; *synonyms* (*adj*) theoretical, academic, (*v*) abridge, filch, extract, lift, (*n*) synopsis, abridgement, digest, epitome, summary, abridgment, brief, outline, precis; *antonym* (*adj*) concrete.
- **референдум** referendum; *synonyms* (*n*) vote, ballot, election, poll, initiative, plebiscitum, plumper, recall, suffrage, voice.
- **референція** reference; *synonyms* (*n*) citation, mention, quotation, quote, allusion, bearing, connection, recommendation, innuendo, annotation, character, concern, consultation, (*v*) cite, refer.
- **peφepi** referee; *synonyms* (n) arbiter, arbitrator, mediator, umpire, adjudicator, ref, moderator, intermediary, referendary, (ν) judge, arbitrate, mediate, adjudicate, intercede.
- **peфopma** reform; synonyms (n) amendment, (v) amend, better, change, correct, rectify, modify, transform, ameliorate, emend, improve, mend, reclaim, regenerate, remodel.
- **реформувати** reform; *synonyms* (n) amendment, (v) amend, better, change, correct, rectify, modify, transform, ameliorate, emend, improve, mend, reclaim, regenerate, remodel.

- **PERICH3 is** review; *synonyms* (n) examination, critique, inspection, retrospect, commentary, comment, parade, magazine, criticism, investigation, (ν) check, survey, criticize, examine, inspect.
- petient 1. receipt; synonyms (n) reception, acceptance, acknowledgment, acquittance, check, recipe, ticket, revenue, certificate, profit, account, invoice, voucher, contrivance, (v) acknowledge; antonym (n) dispatch, 2. recipe; synonyms (n) receipt, method, formula, prescription, secret, nostrum, means, answer, amalgamation, basis, batter, blend, capacity, convention, design, 3. prescription; synonyms (n) medicine, prescript, drug, direction, order, command, medication, law, ordination, edict, regulation, dose, prerogative, (adj) precept, rule, 4. formula; synonyms (n) form, expression, formality, principle, canon, fashion, figure, formulary, pattern, procedure, process, system, blueprint, conventionality.
- **рецидив** recurrence; *synonyms* (*n*) iteration, repetition, return, frequency, comeback, reappearance, reiteration, relapse, harping; *antonym* (*n*) disappearance.
- **рецидивний** recurrent; *synonyms* (*adj*) periodic, recurring, repeated, continual, frequent, perennial, intermittent, persistent, serial, habitual; *antonym* (*adj*) occasional.
- **речення 1**. sentence; *synonyms* (*n*) judgment, finding, decision, condemnation, conviction, phrase, penalty, punishment, verdict, (*v*) condemn, convict, doom, judge, damn, adjudge, **2**. clause; *synonyms* (*n*) article, paragraph, provision, rider, section, chapter, member, condition, prerequisite, proviso, requirement, stipulation, (*v*) passage.
- **peui** goods; *synonyms* (n) cargo, freight, belongings, commodity, merchandise, product, estate, chattels, commodities, effects, produce, property, stuff, wealth, load.
- **речник** speaker; *synonyms* (*n*) loudspeaker, narrator, orator, president, spokesman, conversationalist, chairman, talker, utterer, principal.
- **речовина 1**. matter; *synonyms* (*n*) event, affair, business, concern, issue, material, substance, incident, article, body, import, interest, item, (*v*) case, count, **2**. agent; *synonyms* (*n*) agency, broker, deputy, medium, factor, instrument, mediator, ambassador, attorney, channel, delegate, doer, envoy, intermediary, (*v*) actor, **3**. substance; *synonyms* (*n*) essence, matter, meaning, significance, subject, amount, core, gist, means, quintessence, implication, spirit, content, element, heart; *antonym* (*n*) triviality, **4**. stuff; *synonyms* (*n*) cloth, force, gear, goods, (*v*) cram, fill, jam, pack, pad, ram, squeeze, glut, gorge, load, shove; *antonym* (*v*) unstuff.
- **речовинний** material; *synonyms* (*n*) body, cloth, matter, stuff, fabric, substance, (*adj*) bodily, corporal, corporeal, substantial, concrete, important, physical, real, essential.
- **решітка** 1. grid; *synonyms* (*n*) gridiron, grating, lattice, mesh, netting, network, web, chart, diagram, template, framework, table, 2. rack; *synonyms* (*n*) manger, wrack, bracket, cage, stand, boot, ledge, (*v*) torture, excruciate, torment, afflict, agonize, pain, bedevil, crucify.
- **peurra 1**. remainder; *synonyms* (n) excess, leftover, remain, remnant, end, overplus, residue, balance,

- oddment, rest, leftovers, relic, remains, remnants, residual, **2**. rest; *synonyms* (n) repose, pause, recess, relaxation, leisure, break, quiet, respite, (v) nap, sleep, ease, lie, perch, abide, (adj) remainder; *antonym* (v) work, **3**. surplus; *synonyms* (adj) extra, superfluous, odd, redundant, spare, unnecessary, plus, (n) overabundance, surfeit, glut, overflow, plethora, abundance, nimiety, (adv) over; *antonyms* (n) necessary, lack, shortage, scarcity.
- **puбa** fish; *synonyms* (*n*) bird, insect, mollusk, shellfish, worm, amphibian, beginner, blacktail, (*v*) angle, seek, hunt, pursue, grope, rummage, beg.
- рибалити fish (риба); synonyms (n) bird, insect, mollusk, shellfish, worm, amphibian, beginner, blacktail, (v) angle, seek, hunt, pursue, grope, rummage, beg.
- **риби** fish (риба); *synonyms* (n) bird, insect, mollusk, shellfish, worm, amphibian, beginner, blacktail, (v) angle, seek, hunt, pursue, grope, rummage, beg.
- рибник 1. cage; synonyms (n) jail, pen, hutch, cell, corral, crate, frame, gaol, enclosure, (v) confine, enclose, imprison, incarcerate; antonym (v) free, 2. nursery; synonyms (n) kindergarten, greenhouse, cradle, seminary, nest, glasshouse, puberty, pucelage, pupilage, reformatory, schoolroom, womb, childhood, playgroup, seminarist.
- **риза** cope; *synonyms* (*v*) contend, manage, combat, deal, do, struggle, grapple, (*n*) coping.
- ризик 1. hazard; synonyms (n) chance, risk, venture, danger, peril, fortune, jeopardy, bet, accident, (v) endanger, adventure, gamble, wager, dare, stake; antonym (n) safety, 2. risk; synonyms (n) hazard, insecurity, menace, threat, possibility, speculation, assay, attempt, charge, deposit, (v) imperil, jeopardize, expose, jeopard, try; antonym (v) protect, 3. adventure (пригода); synonyms (n) escapade, event, incident, undertaking, consequence, essay, circumstance, enterprise, experience, exploit, fact, hap, happening, occurrence, deed, 4. danger; synonyms (n) trouble, precariousness, slipperiness, difficulty, exposure, hardship; antonym (n) security.
- ризикований 1. hazardous; synonyms (adj) dangerous, risky, perilous, unsafe, critical, chancy, dicey, insecure, precarious, uncertain, awkward, explosive, treacherous, (n) daring, adventurous; antonym (adj) safe, 2. risky; synonyms (adj) hazardous, dodgy, venturesome, audacious, harmful, reckless, speculative, tricky, venturous, bad, 3. critical; synonyms (adj) acute, decisive, delicate, important, pressing, severe, ticklish, urgent, vital, crucial, fastidious, grave, imperative, minute, (v) censorious; antonyms (adj) complimentary, trivial, positive, flattering, insignificant, approving, unimportant.
- ризикувати 1. risk; synonyms (n) hazard, peril, chance, danger, gamble, jeopardy, adventure, bet, venture, (v) endanger, wager, dare, imperil, jeopardize, stake; antonyms (n) safety, (v) protect, 2. hazard; synonyms (n) risk, fortune, accident, difficulty, insecurity, lot, luck, threat, fate, (v) menace, undertake, expose, guess, pawn, compromise.

- ринг ring (кільце); synonyms (n) encircle, band, gang, jingle, loop, rim, circuit, annulus, (v) circle, call, peal, echo, resound, reverberate, gird.
- ринок market; synonyms (n) fair, shop, bazaar, marketplace, trade, mart, outlet, store, (v) demand, sell, commercialize, exchange, handle, merchandise, sale.
- **PHC** rice; *synonyms* (n) cereal, grain, buckwheat, maize, millet, oats, rye, (adj) meal, bran, farina, flour, spore, sporule.
- **puca** feature; synonyms (n) article, aspect, character, characteristic, detail, lineament, peculiarity, facet, appearance, attribute, fact, mark, particular, quality, (v) display.
- **PHCAK** runner; *synonyms* (n) courier, contrabandist, messenger, offset, sprinter, offshoot, contestant, smuggler, stolon, candidate, carpet, flume, ingate, mooncurser.
- **PHCK** risk; *synonyms* (*n*) hazard, peril, chance, danger, gamble, jeopardy, adventure, bet, venture, (*v*) endanger, wager, dare, imperil, jeopardize, stake; *antonyms* (*n*) safety, (*v*) protect.
- **Pucka** line; *synonyms* (n) cord, file, house, breed, course, family, lineage, field, ancestry, border, boundary, cable, crease, row, (v) order.
- **рисунок** drawing; *synonyms* (n) draft, drafting, delineation, picture, plan, cartoon, depiction, draftsmanship, draught, draw, painting, chart, design, figure, illustration.
- **рити 1**. dig; *synonyms* (*v*) jab, delve, prod, burrow, comprehend, excavate, investigate, probe, apprehend, (*n*) poke, excavation, gibe, punch, stab, taunt; *antonym* (*n*) compliment, **2**. trench; *synonyms* (*n*) channel, ditch, drain, furrow, cut, dike, groove, gutter, hollow, dugout, foxhole, sewer, deep, (*v*) encroach, infringe.
- **PHTHCS** quarry; *synonyms* (n) mine, prey, game, dig, pit, target, victim, butt, excavation, fund, lode, objective, (v) excavate.
- **PHTM 1.** rhythm; *synonyms* (*n*) measure, cadence, meter, beat, pulse, cycle, tempo, rhyme, metre, melody, strain, swing, accent, assonance, crambo, **2.** beat; *synonyms* (*v*) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, cheat, clobber, (*n*) thump, knock, round; *antonym* (*v*) lose.
- **ритмічний** rhythmic; *synonyms* (*adj*) periodic, rhythmical, cyclic, regular, graceful, hypnotic, intermittent, mesmerizing, musical, recurring, smooth, spellbinding, steady, cyclical, fascinating.
- **риторика** rhetoric; *synonyms* (*n*) oratory, eloquence, grandiosity, rant, elocution, grandiloquence, magniloquence, palaver.
- **PUTTS** digging; *synonyms* (n) dig, excavation, barb, gibe, jab, jibe, region, shaft, shot, slam.
- ритуал ritual; synonyms (adj) ceremonial, formal, conventional, ritualistic, (n) rite, ceremony, custom, formality, form, habit, liturgy, observance, sacrament, usage, service.
- **ритуальний** ritual; *synonyms* (*adj*) ceremonial, formal, conventional, ritualistic, (*n*) rite, ceremony, custom, formality, form, habit, liturgy, observance, sacrament, usage, service.

- **ρμφ** key; synonyms (adj) central, fundamental, basic, cardinal, essential, chief, important, principal, (n) guide, handle, clue, legend, clef, password, (ν) identify.
- рицар knight; *synonyms* (*n*) cavalier, horseman, horse, chevalier, knighthood, adventurer, buck, cavalry, diacetylmorphine, heroin, junk, savior, lover, (*v*) dub, nickname.
- piB 1. ditch; synonyms (n) trench, canal, channel, dike, drain, gutter, (v) abandon, chuck, desert, discard, dump, moat, cut, leave, scrap; antonym (v) keep, 2. trench; synonyms (n) ditch, furrow, groove, hollow, dugout, foxhole, sewer, deep, trough, (v) encroach, excavate, infringe, entrench, impinge.
- рівень 1. level; synonyms (n) grade, degree, (adj) even, equal, horizontal, (v) flat, flatten, floor, aim, demolish, destroy, dismantle, raze, bulldoze, balance; antonyms (adj) inclined, slanting, angled, unequal, (v) uneven, build, raise, 2. degree; synonyms (n) class, extent, condition, level, order, place, rank, title, caliber, status, amount, caste, gradation, height, measure, 3. plane; synonyms (n) airplane, face, aeroplane, aircraft, stage, surface, jet, craft, facet, planer, sheet, (v) shave, hover, (adi) smooth, flush.
- **рівний 1**. even; synonyms (adv) yet, (adj) direct, equal, constant, equable, equivalent, flat, horizontal, identical, plane, regular, steady, (v) level, balance, smooth; antonyms (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, jagged, unequal, 2. smooth; synonyms (adj) easy, calm, oily, facile, flowing, fluent, fluid, glossy, graceful, greasy, liquid, mellow, (v) quiet, facilitate, even; antonyms (adi) rough, abrasive, coarse, crumpled, flaking, harsh, jerky, lined, peeling, prickly, ridged, wrinkled, corrugated, (v) wrinkle, crease, 3. equal; synonyms (adj) agree, comparable, adequate, balanced, commensurate, alike, coordinate, (v) match, compare, correspond, parallel, rival, equalize, (n) compeer, peer; antonyms (adj) different, repressive, disproportionate, unlike, (v) differ, 4. flat: synonyms (adi) dull, bland, plain, insipid. tasteless, dreary, boring, absolute, dead, downright, fixed, lifeless, monotonous, (n) apartment, (v) uninteresting; antonyms (adi) exciting, high-pitched, bumpy, 5. level; synonyms (n) grade, degree, category, class, point, (v) flatten, floor, aim, demolish, destroy, dismantle, raze, bulldoze, fell, flush; antonyms (adi) inclined, slanting, angled, (v) build, raise.
- рівнина 1. plain; synonyms (adj) ordinary, comprehensible, intelligible, apparent, clear, downright, easy, evident, homely, humble, level, manifest, obvious, simple, (n) flat; antonyms (adj) elaborate, fancy, unclear, mottled, multicolored, ornate, attractive, concealed, confused, fussy, two-colored, 2. flat; synonyms (adj) dull, bland, even, plain, insipid, plane, tasteless, dreary, boring, absolute, dead, equal, fixed, (n) apartment, (v) uninteresting; antonyms (adj) exciting, high-pitched, bumpy.
- рівність 1. equality; synonyms (n) equivalence, balance, identity, parity, evenness, likeness, par, sameness, equal, analogy, correspondence, equation, similarity; antonyms (n) inequality, disparity, difference, 2. par; synonyms (n) average, equality, mean, norm, (adj) median.

- **piBHO** even; *synonyms* (adv) yet, (adj) direct, equal, constant, equable, equivalent, flat, horizontal, identical, plane, regular, steady, (v) level, balance, smooth; antonyms (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, jagged, unequal.
- **рівновага 1.** equilibrium; synonyms (n) balance, counterpoise, equipoise, poise, counterbalance, symmetry, steadiness, counterweight, equality, par; antonym (n) disequilibrium, 2. balance; synonyms (n) excess, remainder, account, complement, credit, parity, proportion, (v) adjust, offset, compensate, contrast, settle, audit, level, match; antonyms (n) imbalance, (v)
- **рівномірний** even; *synonyms* (adv) yet, (adj) direct, equal, constant, equable, equivalent, flat, horizontal, identical, plane, regular, steady, (v) level, balance, smooth; *antonyms* (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, iagged, unequal.
- **рівноправність** equality; *synonyms* (n) equivalence, balance, identity, parity, evenness, likeness, par, sameness, equal, analogy, correspondence, equation, similarity; *antonyms* (n) inequality, disparity, difference.
- рівноцінний equivalent; synonyms (adj) equal, comparable, alike, analogous, even, corresponding, identical, like, matching, same, equipollent, commensurate, (n) counterpart, match, (v) consideration; antonyms (adj) unlike, (n) different, dissimilar.
- рівня match; synonyms (n) equal, competition, couple, duplicate, (v) agree, mate, meet, parallel, accord, correspond, harmonise, harmonize, balance, fellow, fit; antonyms (v) clash, contradict.
- **рівняння** equation; *synonyms* (*n*) equalization, formula, compensation, equality, equating, proportion, ratio, equivalence.
- **рівняти** even; synonyms (adv) yet, (adj) direct, equal, constant, equable, equivalent, flat, horizontal, identical, plane, regular, steady, (v) level, balance, smooth; antonyms (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, jagged, unequal.
- pir 1. horn; synonyms (n) hooter, cornet, klaxon, alarm, trumpet, aparejo, arm, faldstool, ophicleide, trombone, cup, beak, nose, basin, (v) butt, 2. corner; synonyms (n) bend, angle, turn, coign, dilemma, hole, niche, nook, predicament, quandary, recess, jam, fork, plight, fix.
- **рід 1**. gender; synonyms (n) sex, sexuality, kind, femininity, (v) copulate, 2. species; synonyms (n) sort, breed, class, genus, appearance, form, character, type, variety, (adj) nature, description, race, manner, fashion, (v) offspring, 3. kind; synonyms (n) helpful, benign, brand, gentle, benevolent, (adj) friendly, generous, good, humane, affectionate, charitable, considerate, genial, hospitable, kindly; antonyms (adj) unkind, callous, cruel, hardhearted, mean, merciless, nasty, spiteful, uncaring, upsetting, disagreeable, unfeeling, 4, race; synonyms (n) dash, family, career, competition, people, kin, nation, pedigree, (v) course, run, rush, fly, hasten, hurry, (adj) lineage, 5. family (родина); synonyms (n) descent, household, name, brood, clan, house, stock, species, birth, blood, category, extraction, (adj) home, ancestry, domestic, 6. generation; synonyms (n) age, creation, epoch, era, genesis, contemporaries, formation, period,

- time, day, lifetime, multiplication, production, propagation, (v) germination, 7. nature; *synonyms* (n) disposition, essence, quality, attribute, constitution, humor, mettle, temperament, characteristic, complexion, cosmos, habit, personality, world, mood, 8. sort; *synonyms* (n) assortment, rank, pattern, order, organize, range, figure, grade, (v) group, arrange, classify, divide, assort, pigeonhole, screen, 9. stem; *synonyms* (n) root, bow, branch, shank, stalk, stick, handle, axis, bough, (v) originate, block, arrest, halt, issue, proceed.
- **рідина 1**. liquid; *synonyms* (*adj*) flowing, fluent, fluid, juicy, limpid, watery, sappy, succulent, mobile, smooth, (*n*) liquor, drink, juice, liquidness, sap; *antonyms* (*adj*) firm, (*n*) solid, gaseous, **2**. fluid; *synonyms* (*adj*) liquid, unsettled, changeable, runny, uncertain, unstable, variable, graceful.
- рідкий 1. rare; synonyms (adj) extraordinary, uncommon, exceptional, infrequent, precious, scarce, seldom, thin, unusual, few, choice, curious, fine, odd, peculiar; antonyms (adj) common, frequent, ordinary, 2. fluid; synonyms (n) juice, liquor, (adj) liquid, flowing, unsettled, changeable, smooth, fluent, mobile, runny, juicy, uncertain, unstable, variable, watery; antonym (n) solid, 3. liquid; synonyms (adj) fluid, limpid, sappy, succulent, liquefied, liquified, (n) drink, liquidness, sap; antonyms (adj) firm, (n) gaseous.
- **рідкісний** rare; *synonyms* (*adj*) extraordinary, uncommon, exceptional, infrequent, precious, scarce, seldom, thin, unusual, few, choice, curious, fine, odd, peculiar; *antonyms* (*adj*) common, frequent, ordinary.
- рідко 1. seldom; synonyms (adv) rarely, occasionally, infrequently, uncommonly, hardly, scarcely, (adj) scarce, rare, few, infrequent; antonyms (adv) frequently, often,
   2. rarely; synonyms (adv) seldom, unusually, little, exceptionally; antonym (adv) usually.
- **рідний 1.** native; *synonyms* (*adj*) inborn, inherent, innate, natural, congenital, domestic, inbred, indigenous, autochthonous, connatural, genuine, (*n*) aboriginal, autochthon, citizen, inhabitant; *antonyms* (*adj*) foreign, learned, (*n*) stranger, immigrant, imported, **2**. own; *synonyms* (*v*) acknowledge, admit, have, concede, allow, grant, hold, possess, confess, get, accept, avow, enjoy, (*adj*) individual, proper.
- **рідня** kin; *synonyms* (*n*) family, kindred, folk, house, clan, gender, stock, folks, tribe, connection, kinsmen, affinity, consanguinity, kinfolk, kinsfolk.
- **ріжок** bottle (пляшка); *synonyms* (n) container, flask, jug, jar, pot, carboy, gourd, (v) preserve, can.
- **різанина** massacre; *synonyms* (*n*) slaughter, carnage, butchery, bloodshed, killing, defeat, destruction, (*v*) murder, exterminate, kill, annihilate, butcher, slay, assassinate, decimate.
- **різання** cutting; *synonyms* (*adj*) sharp, biting, keen, acute, bitter, caustic, acrimonious, acid, acrid, incisive, raw, sarcastic, satirical, (*n*) cut, clipping; *antonyms* (*adj*) blunt, mild, (*n*) extension, freedom.
- **pi3atu** cut; *synonyms* (*v*) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (*n*) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, lengthen, (*n*) addition, extension.

- **pi3eu** tool; synonyms (n) instrument, implement, machine, puppet, pawn, device, gadget, apparatus, appliance, cock, contrivance, creature, agent, medium, (ν) drive.
- різкий 1. harsh; synonyms (adj) grating, sharp, austere, bitter, coarse, crude, cruel, discordant, grim, unkind, acrid, acute, biting, brutal, (v) hard; antonyms (adj) smooth, gentle, harmonious, kind, lenient, pleasant, soft, melodious, sweet, 2. acute; synonyms (adj) incisive, intense, keen, penetrating, critical, piercing, severe, shrewd, shrill, smart, strong, acuate, discerning, discriminating, (v) high; antonyms (adj) dull, obtuse.
- **різко** hardly; *synonyms* (*adv*) scarcely, just, rarely, seldom, hard, little, narrowly, scarce, severely, slightly, (*adj*) barely; *antonym* (*adv*) completely.
- різний 1. various; synonyms (adj) diverse, several, different, many, varied, divers, diversified, manifold, miscellaneous, separate, assorted, numerous, dissimilar, distinct, (v) sundry; antonyms (adj) few, homogeneous,
  2. different; synonyms (adj) another, unusual, various, alien, alternative, discrete, foreign, fresh, new, opposite, strange, unlike, mixed, discrepant, specific; antonyms (adj) similar, corresponding, equal, identical, like, typical, 3. diverse; synonyms (adj) disparate, variant, divergent, heterogeneous, multiple, other, 4. varied; synonyms (adj) motley, versatile, odd; antonyms (adj) boring, dull, uniform.
- PI3HUTUCЯ differ; *synonyms* (v) dissent, disagree, contradict, clash, deviate, diverge, depart, conflict, vary, dispute, diversify, quarrel, ablude; *antonyms* (v) agree, concur, conform, correspond.
- **різниця** 1. difference; *synonyms* (*n*) conflict, deviation, change, contention, controversy, disagreement, distinction, discord, discrepancy, dissimilarity, divergence, quarrel, departure, balance, breach; *antonyms* (*n*) correspondence, resemblance, sameness, similarity, agreement, concurrence, **2**. Odds; *synonyms* (*n*) advantage, chance, likelihood, possibility, probability, likeliness, chances, prospect, handicap, superiority, edge, (*v*) difference, dissension, misunderstanding, variance.
- **різнобарвний** painted; *synonyms* (v) depaint, (*adj*) dyed, motley, stained, tinted, assorted, calico, cosmetic, graphic, miscellaneous, mixed, multicolor, multicolored, multicolour, multicoloured.
- **різнобічний** various; *synonyms* (*adj*) diverse, several, different, many, varied, divers, diversified, manifold, miscellaneous, separate, assorted, numerous, dissimilar, distinct, (*v*) sundry; *antonyms* (*adj*) few, homogeneous.
- **різновид 1.** variation; *synonyms* (*n*) alteration, change, difference, divergence, mutation, variance, deviation, discrepancy, departure, fluctuation, disagreement, dissimilarity, permutation, contrast, distinction; *antonym* (*n*) similarity, **2.** variety; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, sort, species, form, style, type, variation, breed, diversity, genus, miscellany, nature, range, strain, (*adj*) class; *antonym* (*n*) uniformity, **3.** species; *synonyms* (*n*) appearance, character, variety, show, sight, order, stock, phenomenon, premonstration, scene, (*adj*) description, race, manner, fashion, (*v*) offspring.

- **різновидність** diversity; *synonyms* (n) variety, dissimilarity, disparity, variation, difference, divergence, assortment, distinction, contrast, inequality, unevenness, change, disagreement, discrepancy, dissimilitude.
- **різноманітити** vary; *synonyms* (v) alter, change, differ, modify, alternate, deviate, diverge, diversify, modulate, depart, disagree, fluctuate, shift, variegate, contrast.
- різноманітний 1. diverse; synonyms (adj) different, assorted, dissimilar, divers, various, distinct, mixed, several, disparate, variant, divergent, miscellaneous, separate, sundry, unlike; antonyms (adj) homogeneous, similar, 2. varied; synonyms (adj) diverse, diversified, heterogeneous, manifold, motley, many, versatile, odd; antonyms (adj) boring, dull, uniform.
- **різноманітність** 1. variety; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, sort, species, change, form, style, type, variation, breed, diversity, genus, miscellany, nature, (*adj*) class, (*v*) difference; *antonym* (*n*) uniformity, **2**. relief; *synonyms* (*n*) comfort, aid, consolation, ease, help, relaxation, release, respite, solace, abatement, alleviation, encouragement, redress, rest, (*v*) assistance.
- **різнорідний** mixed; *synonyms* (*adj*) miscellaneous, assorted, composite, heterogeneous, integrated, medley, impure, amalgamated, diverse, intermingled, motley, varied, indiscriminate, (*v*) blended, mingled; *antonyms* (*adj*) homogeneous, insular, pure.
- **різносторонній** versatile; *synonyms* (adj) changeable, adaptable, variable, various, mobile, fickle, capricious, inconstant, unsteady, clever.
- **різня** massacre; *synonyms* (n) slaughter, carnage, butchery, bloodshed, killing, defeat, destruction, (v) murder, exterminate, kill, annihilate, butcher, slay, assassinate, decimate.
- PIM cluster; synonyms (n) bunch, clump, batch, group, agglomeration, collection, crowd, gang, knot, lot, tuft, (v) bundle, huddle, collect, gather; antonym (v) disperse.
- **piκ** year; *synonyms* (n) twelvemonth, day, age, time, yr, class, hour, minute, month, quarter, second, week.
- **piκa** river; synonyms (n) creek, flow, current, waterway, watercourse, (ν) brook, stream, burn, bayou, beck, (adj) water
- pict 1. growth; synonyms (n) development, accretion, augmentation, evolution, gain, increase, enlargement, germination, accumulation, accession, addition, advance, improvement, increment, (v) grow; antonyms (n) decrease, reduction, weakening, decline, 2. growing; synonyms (adj) flourishing, rising, thriving, blossoming, progressive, swelling, adolescent, budding, burgeoning, cumulative, enlarging, (n) developing, growth, (adv) increasing; antonyms (adj) deteriorating, dwindling.
- piu 1. thing; synonyms (n) matter, affair, event, object, occurrence, article, concern, happening, something, substance, being, occasion, incident, business, deed, 2. object; synonyms (n) design, aim, cause, end, intention, meaning, mark, subject, drift, goal, (v) except, mind, complain, demur; antonym (v) agree.
- **річище** channel; *synonyms* (*n*) canal, conduit, groove, drain, duct, line, passage, trough, waterway, aqueduct, link, hollow, (*v*) саrry, conduct, convey.

- **річка** river; *synonyms* (n) creek, flow, current, waterway, watercourse, (v) brook, stream, burn, bayou, beck, (adj) water
- **річний** annual; *synonyms* (*adj*) yearly, annuary, (*n*) almanac, yearbook, ephemeris, magazine.
- **річниця** anniversary; *synonyms* (*n*) birthday, celebration, festival, holiday, anniverse, milestone, ceremony, feast, festivity, recurrence, (*adj*) annual.
- рішення 1. decision; synonyms (n) conclusion, determination, resolution, sentence, verdict, arbitration, ruling, choice, will, constancy, agreement, decisiveness, decree, (v) judgment, award, 2. counsel; synonyms (n) caution, advocate, advisement, admonition, attorney, consultation, counselor, exhortation, guidance, (v) advice, advise, consult, admonish, confer, exhort, 3. resolution; synonyms (n) decision, answer, firmness, purpose, resolve, solution, decomposition, analysis, dissolution, fortitude, perseverance, resoluteness, settlement, dissection, conversion; antonym (n) indecisiveness.
- **рішучий 1**. vigorous; *synonyms* (adj) robust, strong, energetic, hardy, lively, powerful, strenuous, active, athletic, hearty, mighty, healthy, smart, (n) brave, (v) brisk; antonyms (adi) feeble, lethargic, weak, dull, unenergetic, 2. decisive; synonyms (adj) conclusive, critical, crucial, decided, definite, final, important, positive, authoritative, convincing, definitive, determined, (v) absolute, categorical, determinate; antonyms (adj) indecisive, uncertain, unsure, 3. decided; synonyms (v) clear, emphatic, marked, settled, (adj) decisive, distinct, resolute, unmistakable, fixed, peremptory, unequivocal, certain, finished, firm, stark; antonym (adj) undecided, 4. resolved; synonyms (adj) set, intent, solved, unvielding, bent, obstinate, 5. drastic; synonyms (adj) severe, desperate, extreme, sweeping, ultra, thorough, escharotic, harsh, stiff, tough, dire, forcible, rough, essential, fundamental, 6. determined; synonyms (adj) constant, inflexible, resolved, stubborn, ambitious, adamant, bold, tenacious, earnest, dogged, forceful, gritty, indomitable, inexorable, persistent; antonyms (adj) irresolute, unmotivated.
- рішучість 1. determination; synonyms (n) decision, conclusion, definition, resolution, decisiveness, resolve, tenacity, will, appointment, assessment, constancy, courage, firmness, fortitude, (v) award; antonyms (n) indecision, weakness, compliance, indecisiveness, 2. decision; synonyms (n) determination, sentence, verdict, arbitration, ruling, choice, agreement, decree, discrimination, finality, finding, result, (v) judgment, doom, 3. resolution; synonyms (n) answer, purpose, solution, decomposition, analysis, dissolution, perseverance, resoluteness, settlement, dissection, conversion, explanation, breakdown, motion, steadfastness.
- робити 1. make; synonyms (v) build, cause, construct, do, create, fashion, force, get, give, produce, let, compel, constitute, design, (n) form; antonyms (v) destroy, lose, 2. do; synonyms (v) act, cheat, commit, accomplish, complete, conduct, perform, achieve, make, practice, defraud, answer, arrange, (n) function, occasion; antonyms (v) neglect, unmake, 3. work (poбота);

- *synonyms* (n) exercise, business, employment, task, action, book, composition, (v) labor, operate, toil, cultivate, exploit, ferment, (adj) job, trade; *antonyms* (v) idle. malfunction.
- **робитися** become; *synonyms* (*v*) be, grow, suit, arise, get, match, sit, come, fall, fit, go, make, turn, wax, change.
- **робітник 1.** worker; *synonyms* (*n*) employee, hand, proletarian, workman, actor, doer, drudge, help, operator, practitioner, prole, **2**. employee; *synonyms* (*n*) clerk, laborer, worker, apprentice, assistant, helper, labor, beginner, breadwinner, cog, convert, craftsman, flunky, lackey, newcomer; *antonym* (*n*) employer.
- poбota 1. work; synonyms (n) exercise, business, employment, function, task, action, act, book, composition, (v) labor, operate, toil, cultivate, (adj) job, trade; antonyms (v) idle, malfunction, 2. job; synonyms (n) chore, position, work, assignment, career, duty, matter, occupation, post, concern, line, mission, office, profession, stint, 3. working; synonyms (adj) operative, practical, active, busy, acting, occupied, effective, engaged, (n) operation, running, functioning, play, agency, movement, performance; antonyms (adj) passive, unemployed, 4. labour; synonyms (n) effort, exertion, childbed, confinement, proletariat, (v) grind, travail, drive, drudge, fag, fatigue, moil, push, tug, dig, 5. operation; synonyms (n) execution, effect, management, activity, force, manipulation, operations, procedure, process, use, mechanism, administration, deed, treatment, campaign.
- роботи work (робота); synonyms (n) exercise, business, employment, function, task, action, act, book, composition, (v) labor, operate, toil, cultivate, (adj) job, trade; antonyms (v) idle, malfunction.
- **роботодавець** employer; *synonyms* (*n*) boss, master, businessperson, patron, capitalist, company, corporation, director, establishment, executive, firm, juice, kingpin, management, organization; *antonym* (*n*) employee.
- **робочий 1.** working; *synonyms* (*adj*) operative, practical, active, busy, acting, occupied, effective, engaged, (*n*) operation, running, functioning, play, agency, movement, performance; *antonyms* (*adj*) passive, unemployed, **2**. operational; *synonyms* (*adj*) operating, functional, operable, usable, working, available, prepared, ready, set, useable, going, outfitted, practicable, **3**. operating; *synonyms* (*n*) exploitation, farming, (*adj*) employed, energetic, energical, loose, managing, performing.
- **роди** birth; *synonyms* (n) beginning, ancestry, descent, extraction, genesis, parturition, blood, labor, lineage, nascency, nativity, onset, (v) delivery, bear, deliver; *antonym* (n) death.
- **родина 1.** family; *synonyms* (n) descent, household, name, breed, brood, clan, class, genus, house, kin, lineage, people, (adj) home, ancestry, domestic, **2.** household; *synonyms* (n) folk, stock, menage, roof, (adj) family, common, (v) ordinary, everyday, usual, frequent, general.
- **родинний** family (родина); *synonyms* (n) descent, household, name, breed, brood, clan, class, genus, house, kin, lineage, people, (adj) home, ancestry, domestic.

- POДИТЕЛЬ parent; synonyms (n) mother, origin, source, forefather, prototype, precursor, (v) father, foster, rear, nurture, generate, advance, advert, arouse, boot; antonym (n) child.
- родич 1. relative; *synonyms* (*adj*) related, comparative, proportionate, proportional, dependent, relevant, (*n*) relation, brother, connection, congenator, congener, (*v*) kinsman; *antonym* (*adj*) absolute, 2. cousin; *synonyms* (*n*) nephew, friend, companion, allied, 3. relation; *synonyms* (*n*) account, narration, recital, affinity, association, description, regard, rehearsal, kin, bearing, bond, narrative, reference, relationship, (*v*) report.
- **родовий** generic; *synonyms* (*adj*) general, common, universal, ordinary, basic, cognate, economy, unadorned, utilitarian, generical, nonexclusive, plain, straightforward.
- **родовитий** gentle; *synonyms* (*adj*) clement, calm, easy, friendly, soft, affable, balmy, kind, mild, tame, feeble, amiable, benign, bland, (*n*) benevolent; *antonyms* (*adj*) caustic, cruel, fierce, harsh, loud, violent, rough, abrupt, hardhearted, heavy, sarcastic, sheer, steep.
- **родоначальник** root; *synonyms* (n) base, foundation, origin, basis, radical, radix, cause, derivation, reason, beginning, bottom, core, essence, (v) establish, dig.
- родючий 1. fertile; synonyms (adj) productive, fat, fecund, abundant, affluent, copious, exuberant, fruitful, creative, bountiful, inventive, luxuriant, prolific, rich, ample; antonyms (adj) infertile, sterile, 2. generous; synonyms (adj) full, benevolent, charitable, fair, flush, kind, liberal, spacious, benign, bounteous, broad, considerable, handsome, kindly, (n) free; antonyms (adj) stingy, meager, mean, measly, miserly, small, tightfisted, avaricious, greedy, ungenerous, 3. rich; synonyms (adj) fertile, deep, luxurious, opulent, plentiful, bright, heavy. grand, lush, magnificent, mellow, plenteous, wealthy, well-off, (v) ornate; antonyms (adj) poor, broke, destitute, impoverished, light, 4. productive; synonyms (adi) generative, helpful, lucrative, constructive, original, producing, profitable, efficient, gainful, economic, efficacious, imaginative, procreative, active, beneficial; antonyms (adj) unproductive, barren, unprofitable.
- **родючість** fertility; *synonyms* (*n*) fecundity, birthrate, productivity, affluence, uberty, abundance, natality, plenty, prolificacy, richness; *antonyms* (*n*) sterility, infertility.
- **POWA** rose; *synonyms* (v) flush, redden, glow, (n) rosette, red, (adj) pink, rosaceous, roseate, anemone, asphodel, begonia, buttercup, daffodil, geranium, lily.
- **рожевий** pink; *synonyms* (*adj*) flower, pinkish, (*n*) red, crimson, rose, carmine, (*v*) knock, gore, impale, prick, punch, spear, spike, stab, enfilade.
- **розбещений** filthy; *synonyms* (*adj*) dirty, dingy, foul, nasty, unclean, disgusting, squalid, bawdy, awful, grimy, grubby, impure, indecent, muddy, ribald; *antonyms* (*adj*) clean, decent.
- **розбещеність** corruption; *synonyms* (*n*) contamination, depravity, adulteration, pollution, bribery, filth, infection, taint, vitiation, canker, blight, foulness, impurity, contagion, (*adj*) shuffle; *antonyms* (*n*) purification, decency, honesty, incorruptness.

- **розбещення** pollution; *synonyms* (*n*) contamination, filth, infection, befoulment, corruption, dirtiness, impurity, infamy, foulness, soiling, contagion, disgrace, (*adi*) defilement, taint, depravity.
- розбивати 1. break; *synonyms* (*v*) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (*n*) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; *antonyms* (*v*) repair, obey, honor, mend, (*n*) continuation, 2. defeat; *synonyms* (*n*) frustration, ruin, beating, (*v*) crush, overcome, beat, conquer, abolish, baffle, foil, overpower, repulse, rout, subdue, (*adj*) rebuff; *antonyms* (*n*) victory, success, win, (*v*) lose, surrender, 3. split; *synonyms* (*v*) cut, slit, divide, separate, divorce, cleave, division, fork, part, (*n*) break, rip, tear, cleavage, cleft, parting; *antonyms* (*v*) join, unite, merge.
- **розбирання 1**. demolition; *synonyms* (*n*) annihilation, demolishment, destruction, devastation, obliteration, ruin, razing, sabotage, death, disposal, bulldozing, destroyer, downfall, end, explosion; *antonym* (*n*) construction, **2**. picking; *synonyms* (*adj*) careful, nice, (*n*) pick, option, selection, alternative, choice, burling, cream, filling, pickax, pickaxe, preference, pilfering, plectron.
- **розбирати** analyse; *synonyms* (*v*) analyze, canvass, dissect, examine, study, psychoanalyse, psychoanalyze, canvas, collapse, contemplate, crumble, crumple, crush, die, (*n*) analyser.
- **розбити** break; *synonyms* (v) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (n) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; *antonyms* (v) repair, obey, honor, mend, (n) continuation.
- розбитий broken; synonyms (v) broke, (adj) tame, torn, busted, imperfect, intermittent, rough, rugged, ruined, uneven, disjointed, incomplete, confused, cracked, crushed; antonyms (adj) constant, unbroken, intact, whole, wild.
- **PO36IXHICT6** variance; *synonyms* (*n*) difference, disagreement, discrepancy, dissension, division, deviation, discord, divergence, misunderstanding, diversity, dissimilarity, dissonance, conflict, dispute, variability.
- **розбірливий** coherent; *synonyms* (*adj*) logical, rational, consistent, lucid, tenacious, clear, orderly, comprehensible, connected, sound; *antonyms* (*adj*) incoherent, illogical, confused, disjointed, rambling.
- **розбірливо** plain; *synonyms* (*adj*) ordinary, comprehensible, intelligible, apparent, clear, downright, easy, evident, homely, humble, level, manifest, obvious, simple, (*n*) flat; *antonyms* (*adj*) elaborate, fancy, unclear, mottled, multicolored, ornate, attractive, concealed, confused, fussy, two-colored.
- **po3Bara 1.** entertainment; *synonyms* (n) amusement, distraction, diversion, enjoyment, party, feast, fun, pastime, pleasure, reception, recreation, regalement, show, cheer, banquet, **2.** amusement; *synonyms* (n) entertainment, sport, hobby, joy, laughter, play, dissipation, delight, festivity, game, glee, happiness, hilarity, leisure, merriment; *antonyms* (n) sadness, boredom, **3.** diversion; *synonyms* (n) deviation, detour, digression, aberration, deflection, deflexion, departure, avocation, divagation, pursuit, relaxation, interest, trick,

- **4.** play; *synonyms* (*v*) act, enact, exercise, perform, joke, execute, fiddle, flirt, wager, (*n*) frolic, bet, gambol, romp, jest, caper; *antonym* (*v*) work.
- PO3BAHTAЖEHHЯ discharge; synonyms (n) release, dismissal, drain, (v) acquit, clear, absolve, complete, deliver, eject, cashier, burst, blast, bounce, detonate, disgorge; antonyms (v) capture, hire.
- PO3BAHTAЖУВАННЯ discharge; synonyms (n) release, dismissal, drain, (v) acquit, clear, absolve, complete, deliver, eject, cashier, burst, blast, bounce, detonate, disgorge; antonyms (v) capture, hire.
- розвантажувати discharge; synonyms (n) release, dismissal, drain, (v) acquit, clear, absolve, complete, deliver, eject, cashier, burst, blast, bounce, detonate, disgorge; antonyms (v) capture, hire.
- розведення 1. cultivation; synonyms (n) agriculture, civilization, culture, farming, refinement, development, growth, breeding, education, gentility, sophistication, tillage, acculturation, finish; antonym (n) neglect, 2. culture (культура); synonyms (n) cultivation, learning, erudition, courtesy, enlightenment, instruction, civilisation, elegance, maturity, society, 3. breeding; synonyms (n) generation, manners, nurture, reproduction, upbringing, fosterage, fostering, procreation, raising, rearing, teaching, training, propriety, (adj) fruitful, 4. keeping; synonyms (n) custody, care, conservation, charge, guardianship, holding, maintenance, observance, preservation, protection, retention, safekeeping, trust, ward, coloring; antonym (n) end.
- **розвивати** develop; *synonyms* (*v*) advance, amplify, educate, expand, grow, breed, contract, acquire, bloom, blossom, break, bud, build, come, cultivate; *antonyms* (*v*) decrease, erupt, neglect, regress.
- posbhbathca progress; synonyms (n) headway, improvement, furtherance, betterment, gain, course, advancement, development, growth, increase, (v) advance, proceed, continue, develop, go; antonyms (n) decline, deterioration, (v) regress.
- розвиток 1. development; synonyms (n) evolution, course, growth, improvement, increase, progress, spread, advance, augmentation, change, developing, effect, elaboration, expansion, movement; antonyms (n) deterioration, decline, neglect, decrease, 2. progress; synonyms (n) headway, furtherance, betterment, gain, advancement, development, (v) proceed, continue, develop, go, move, grow, improve, pass, prosper; antonym (v) regress, 3. growth; synonyms (n) accretion, enlargement, germination, accumulation, accession, addition, increment, rise, bulge, extension, growing, outgrowth, swelling, emergence, aggrandizement; antonyms (n) reduction, weakening, 4. evolution; synonyms (n) process, evolvement, mutation, alteration, modification, progression, innovation, (v) operation, elimination, eradication, 5. cultivation; synonyms (n) agriculture, civilization, culture, farming, refinement, breeding, education, gentility, sophistication, tillage, acculturation, finish.
- **PO3BI**Д divorce; *synonyms* (n) separation, divorcement, rupture, (v) detach, dissociate, disunite, separate, divide,

- isolate, disjoin, disjoint, disassociate, part, sever, split; *antonyms* (*n*) marriage, wedding.
- posbigka intelligence; synonyms (n) information, cleverness, intellect, news, tidings, understanding, acumen, brain, brains, capacity, comprehension, knowledge, mentality, notice, sharpness; antonyms (n) stupidity, emotion.
- **po3BigyBatu** explore; *synonyms* (v) delve, examine, search, research, discover, hunt, investigate, plumb, probe, prospect, scrutinize, view, do, detect, spy.
- **розвішувати** hang; *synonyms* (*v*) dangle, depend, drape, float, append, cling, decorate, execute, fall, flow, hover, swing, (*n*) suspend, delay, knack.
- **розводити 1.** breed; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, race, variety, ancestry, sort, order, class, genus, (*v*) engender, beget, multiply, bear, brood, cause, cultivate, **2.** rear; *synonyms* (*adj*) back, erect, after, (*n*) posterior, tail, backside, behind, bottom, (*v*) breed, nurture, raise, educate, foster, nurse, build; *antonyms* (*adj*) fore, (*n*) front.
- **розв'язання** solution; *synonyms* (n) dissolution, resolution, answer, settlement, resolve, determination, explanation, key, result, remedy, definition, resolving, clarification, liquid, reply.
- розв'язати solve; synonyms (v) resolve, interpret, answer, decipher, dissolve, crack, elucidate, explain, riddle, decide, loosen, figure, guess, conclude, (adj) loose.
- **po3B'язувати** solve; synonyms (v) resolve, interpret, answer, decipher, dissolve, crack, elucidate, explain, riddle, decide, loosen, figure, guess, conclude, (adj) loose.
- **розганяти** chase; *synonyms* (*n*) game, search, quest, (*v*) hunt, pursue, expel, follow, stalk, track, trail, chamfer, pursuit, race, seek, evict.
- **розгляд** consideration; *synonyms* (*n*) concern, respect, attention, care, reflection, thought, account, cogitation, conception, deliberation, notice, tact, thoughtfulness, (*v*) regard, condition; *antonyms* (*n*) thoughtlessness, impulsiveness, inconsideration.
- розглядати 1. consider; synonyms (v) believe, regard, think, cogitate, view, assume, calculate, conceive, contemplate, deliberate, reckon, reflect, analyze, consult, (n) study; antonym (v) ignore, 2. examine; synonyms (v) assay, audit, consider, overhaul, try, check, control, search, survey, ascertain, ask, compare, canvass, essay, investigate, 3. treat; synonyms (v) handle, deal, manage, process, heal, nurse, regale, operate, doctor, (n) feast, administer, delicacy, luxury, tidbit, banquet.
- PO3ГНІВАНИЙ angry; synonyms (adj) furious, incensed, provoked, fierce, irate, raging, vehement, maddened, fuming, outraged, piqued, splenetic, angered, annoyed, boiling; antonyms (adj) calm, pleased, gentle.
- розгортання 1. deployment; *synonyms* (*n*) deploy, use, consumption, employment, exploitation, maneuver, operation, rollout, 2. evolution; *synonyms* (*n*) development, growth, expansion, movement, process, progress, evolvement, change, mutation, advance, alteration, modification, progression, (*v*) elimination, eradication; *antonym* (*n*) deterioration.

- PO3ΓPOM defeat; synonyms (n) frustration, ruin, beating, (v) crush, overcome, beat, conquer, abolish, baffle, foil, overpower, repulse, rout, subdue, (adj) rebuff; antonyms (n) victory, success, win, (v) lose, surrender.
- **розгромити** kill; *synonyms* (*v*) assassinate, destroy, erase, annihilate, eliminate, extinguish, finish, blast, butcher, decimate, dispatch, eradicate, execute, (*n*) murder, game.
- **роздавати** deal; *synonyms* (*n*) bargain, buy, agreement, arrangement, covenant, trade, (*v*) administer, allot, apportion, conduct, contract, cope, distribute, truck, assign; *antonym* (*n*) purchase.
- **роздирати** tear; *synonyms* (*n*) split, rupture, rent, (*v*) break, rip, crack, pull, rend, lacerate, race, run, rush, slit, rive, cleave.
- **розділ** chapter; *synonyms* (n) episode, branch, article, convocation, head, part, section, stage, caput, installment.
- **розділений** divided; *synonyms* (*adj*) cleft, split, detached, forked, separate, separated, shared, disjointed.
- розділяти 1. share; synonyms (n) piece, portion, deal, dole, lot, allotment, (v) participate, allot, apportion, distribute, part, partake, dispense, divide, partition; antonym (v) control, 2. part; synonyms (n) constituent, article, character, component, cut, division, section, share, (v) branch, break, disjoin, divorce, class, cleave, dissociate; antonyms (n) whole, entirety, (adj) complete.
- PO3ДІЛЯТИСЯ part; synonyms (n) constituent, piece, article, character, component, cut, division, portion, section, share, (v) branch, break, disjoin, divide, divorce; antonyms (n) whole, entirety, (adj) complete.
- **роздмухувати** fan; *synonyms* (*n*) admirer, buff, devotee, enthusiast, addict, adherent, afficionado, fiend, follower, advocate, disciple, (*v*) air, winnow, refresh, blow; *antonym* (*n*) detractor.
- PO3ДPATOBAHИЙ angry; synonyms (adj) furious, incensed, provoked, fierce, irate, raging, vehement, maddened, fuming, outraged, piqued, splenetic, angered, annoyed, boiling; antonyms (adj) calm, pleased, gentle.
- **роздратування** irritation; *synonyms* (*n*) aggravation, exasperation, anger, annoyance, displeasure, bother, excitation, excitement, temper, annoying, frustration, irritability, nuisance, pique, rage; *antonym* (*n*) pleasure.
- **роздрібний** retail; *synonyms* (*adj*) commercial, (*v*) sell, issue, merchandise, trade, wholesale, utter, vend, handle, (*n*) dispense, business, buying, exchange, export, import.
- **роздрук** printing; *synonyms* (*n*) impression, issue, imprint, type, duplicating, copying, belief, depression, effect, feeling, notion, opinion, picture, embossing, printmaking.
- **роздуватися** balloon; *synonyms* (*n*) bubble, (*v*) ball, inflate, billow, bloat, bulge, distend, soar, swell, fly, expand, increase; *antonym* (*v*) deflate.
- **роздумування** speculation; *synonyms* (*n*) hypothesis, guess, reflection, venture, guesswork, meditation, gamble, adventure, conjecture, supposition, surmise, theory, risk, cogitation, assumption.
- **роздутість** inflation (інфляція); *synonyms* (n) expansion, dilatation, increase, rise, boom, subtilization, appreciation, accumulation, augmentation, bombast,

- conceit, depression, euphemism, exaggeration, (adj) pretension; antonym (n) deflation.
- **роздягати** strip; *synonyms* (*n*) band, slip, (*v*) deprive, despoil, divest, peel, plunder, rifle, denude, ransack, pillage, pluck, pare, sack, bare; *antonyms* (*v*) dress, decorate.
- **po3 "Iдати** eat; synonyms (v) devour, consume, bite, dine, munch, corrode, deplete, drink, feed, finish, gnaw, gobble, gorge, graze, (adj) digest.
- PO3KA3ATH tell; synonyms (v) relate, declare, divulge, express, impart, recount, reveal, explain, announce, command, communicate, describe, distinguish, (n) disclose, count; antonym (v) request.
- PO3KA3YBATH tell; synonyms (v) relate, declare, divulge, express, impart, recount, reveal, explain, announce, command, communicate, describe, distinguish, (n) disclose, count; antonym (v) request.
- **PO3ΚαΙΘΒΑΤΗCЯ** regret; synonyms (v) bewail, grieve, bemoan, deplore, lament, mourn, sorrow, repent, (n) grief, compunction, contrition, penitence, remorse, repentance, disappointment.
- розквіт 1. blow (дути); synonyms (n) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (v) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (adj) gasp; antonyms (v) calm, save, 2. noon; synonyms (n) midday, noonday, noontide, crest, lunchtime, (adj) meridian, culmination, meridional, 3. prime; synonyms (adj) main, chief, first, head, early, essential, fundamental, paramount, primary, excellent, exquisite, (n) best, cardinal, flower, (v) ground; antonym (adj) minor.
- **po3kim** luxury; *synonyms* (*adj*) delicacy, luxurious, deluxe, gratification, indulgence, sumptuous, (*n*) comfort, extravagance, lavishness, luxuriousness, elegance, luxe, opulence, wealth, ease; *antonyms* (*n*) essential, paucity.
- розкішний 1. luxurious; synonyms (adj) voluptuous, costly, deluxe, lavish, sumptuous, epicurean, grand, luscious, comfortable, expensive, magnificent, opulent, rich, (n) lush, luxuriant; antonym (adj) cheap, 2. splendid; synonyms (adj) fine, gorgeous, illustrious, beautiful, brilliant, noble, royal, gallant, proud, admirable, good, impressive, luxurious, (v) glorious, (n) excellent; antonym (adj) poor, 3. costly; synonyms (adj) dear, precious, valuable, extravagant, high, pricey, invaluable, beloved, plush, priceless, pricy, splendid; antonym (adj) worthless, 4. gorgeous; synonyms (adj) attractive, gaudy, wonderful, gay, delicious, delightful, handsome, lovely, pretty, resplendent, showy, striking, stunning, superb, delectable; antonym (adj) ugly, 5. rank; synonyms (n) range, place, file, gradation, line, degree, quality, (v) arrange, order, class, classify, grade, position, array, group; antonym (adj) fresh.
- розклад 1. timetable; synonyms (n) schedule, agenda, list, card, register, roster, rota, diary, 2. schedule; synonyms (n) catalog, program, calendar, catalogue, inventory, table, roll, index, chart, docket, plan, fare, arrangement, (v) book, arrange, 3. curriculum; synonyms (n) course, syllabus, discipline, class, broadcast, classes, lessons, module, prospectus, platform, series, 4. timing; synonyms (n) timekeeping, running, 5. table (стіл); synonyms (n) board, stand,

- plateau, console, platen, panel, header, (v) defer, postpone, shelve, slate, tablet, delay, foolscap, (adj) plate, 6. syllabus; synonyms (n) curriculum, conspectus, synopsis, summary, compendium, epitome, outlines
- розкладання 1. dissolution; *synonyms* (*n*) decay, breakup, decomposition, abolition, cancellation, analysis, dismissal, annulment, death, dissipation, demise, adjournment, departure, disintegration, licentiousness, 2. decay; *synonyms* (*n*) decline, ebb, corruption, collapse, deterioration, (*v*) rot, decompose, blight, rust, crumble, corrupt, decrease, deteriorate, disintegrate, (*adj*) fade; *antonym* (*n*) growth.
- розкладатися decay; *synonyms* (*n*) decline, decomposition, ebb, corruption, disintegration, collapse, deterioration, (*v*) rot, decompose, blight, rust, crumble, corrupt, decrease, deteriorate; *antonym* (*n*) growth.
- **розкол 1**. break; *synonyms* (*v*) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (*n*) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; *antonyms* (*v*) repair, obey, honor, mend, (*n*) continuation, **2**. split; *synonyms* (*v*) cut, slit, divide, separate, divorce, cleave, division, fork, part, (*n*) break, rip, tear, cleavage, cleft, parting; *antonyms* (*v*) join, unite, merge.
- PO3KOJHOBATH split; synonyms (v) crack, cut, fracture, slit, burst, divide, separate, divorce, breach, cleave, (n) break, rip, rupture, tear, cleavage; antonyms (v) join, unite, merge.
- PO3KOJIOBATUC¶ split; synonyms (v) crack, cut, fracture, slit, burst, divide, separate, divorce, breach, cleave, (n) break, rip, rupture, tear, cleavage; antonyms (v) join, unite, merge.
- **розкопки** digging; *synonyms* (*n*) dig, excavation, barb, gibe, jab, jibe, region, shaft, shot, slam.
- **розкопувати** dig; *synonyms* (*v*) jab, delve, prod, burrow, comprehend, excavate, investigate, probe, apprehend, (*n*) poke, excavation, gibe, punch, stab, taunt; *antonym* (*n*) compliment.
- розкривати disclose; *synonyms* (v) betray, declare, impart, detect, discover, divulge, reveal, convey, announce, air, communicate, bare, break, expose, (*adj*) confess; *antonyms* (v) conceal, secrete.
- **розкриття** disclosure; *synonyms* (n) discovery, exposure, revelation, declaration, confession, announcement, betrayal, divulgence, manifestation, publication, admission, apocalypse, ascertainment.
- **розлад** frustration; *synonyms* (*n*) failure, defeat, disappointment, letdown, vexation, setback, check, disillusionment, anger, irritation, annoyance, dissatisfaction, foiling.
- **розливатися** pour; *synonyms* (*v*) gush, shed, decant, flow, pelt, scatter, stream, discharge, emit, jet, run, spill, teem, (*n*) overflow, rain; *antonym* (*v*) drizzle.
- **розлука** separation; *synonyms* (*n*) detachment, disjunction, disunion, division, partition, disconnection, divorce, isolation, parting, rift, seclusion, break, breakup, demarcation, departure; *antonyms* (*n*) amalgamation, closeness, connection, marriage, unification, union, unity.
- **розлучатися 1**. divorce; *synonyms* (*n*) separation, divorcement, rupture, (*v*) detach, dissociate, disunite,

- separate, divide, isolate, disjoin, disjoint, disassociate, part, sever, split; *antonyms* (n) marriage, wedding, **2**. part; *synonyms* (n) constituent, piece, article, character, component, cut, division, portion, section, share, (v) branch, break, divorce, class, cleave; *antonyms* (n) whole, entirety, (*adj*) complete.
- **розлучення** divorce; *synonyms* (*n*) separation, divorcement, rupture, (*v*) detach, dissociate, disunite, separate, divide, isolate, disjoin, disjoint, disassociate, part, sever, split; *antonyms* (*n*) marriage, wedding.
- розмаїтий varied; synonyms (adj) assorted, diverse, miscellaneous, mixed, various, different, diversified, sundry, heterogeneous, manifold, motley, many, dissimilar, versatile, odd; antonyms (adj) boring, dull, homogeneous, uniform.
- **po3MaïTicTb** Variety; synonyms (n) kind, sort, species, change, form, style, type, variation, breed, diversity, genus, miscellany, nature, (adj) class, (ν) difference; antonym (n) uniformity.
- **розмарин** rosemary; *synonyms* (*n*) herb, thyme, basil, parsley, rosmarine, sage, marjoram.
- PO3MAX 1. area (площа); synonyms (n) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood, section, sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land, 2. swing; synonyms (n) sweep, range, (v) sway, fluctuate, oscillate, dangle, hang, rock, beat, brandish, change, move, shake, turn, vibrate.
- розмежування differentiation; synonyms (n) difference, distinction, contrast, demarcation, discrimination, specialization, disparity, diorism, separation, dissimilarity, (v) division, addition, approximation, equations, estimation.
- **РОЗМИНУТИСЯ** CTOSS; *synonyms* (*n*) crisscross, affliction, (*v*) intersect, baffle, cover, thwart, (*adj*) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; *antonyms* (*v*) uncross, (*adj*) calm, good-tempered.
- **po3MiH** change; synonyms (n) shift, alteration, barter, modification, variation, move, (v) exchange, alter, adapt, alternate, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn; antonyms (v) stay, leave, idle, maintain.
- posminiobatu change; synonyms (n) shift, alteration, barter, modification, variation, move, (v) exchange, alter, adapt, alternate, cash, convert, switch, transpose, turn; antonyms (v) stay, leave, idle, maintain.
- po3Mip 1. size; synonyms (n) measure, bulk, capacity, dimension, dimensions, extent, largeness, quantity, glue, amount, breadth, degree, magnitude, mass, (v) gauge; antonyms (n) length, slenderness, 2. gauge; synonyms (n) criterion, caliber, gage, calibre, benchmark, (v) estimate, calculate, assess, compute, fathom, make, reckon, forecast, scale, appraise, 3. dimension; synonyms (n) size, attribute, proportion, range, bigness, stretch, measurement, balance, 4. scale; synonyms (n) flake, gamut, graduation, yardstick, rate, chip, fur, gradation, pitch, (v) ascend, climb, mount, weigh, rise, peel; antonym (v) descend, 5. metre; synonyms (n) meter, beat, rhythm, m, cadence, chiliad, g, grand, molarity, poem, thou, thousand, yard, 6. measure; synonyms (n) act, allotment, action, bill, dose, pace,

- portion, proceeding, time, lot, ( $\nu$ ) grade, evaluate, value, examine, (adj) mete.
- **PO3MIIIIYBAHHЯ** stir; *synonyms* (v) arouse, budge, move, rouse, affect, agitate, excite, inspire, go, (n) movement, commotion, disturbance, excitement, agitation, (adj) bustle.
- **po3mimyBaTu** Stir; synonyms (v) arouse, budge, move, rouse, affect, agitate, excite, inspire, go, (n) movement, commotion, disturbance, excitement, agitation, (adj) bustle.
- **розміщення 1**. placement; *synonyms* (*n*) disposition, arrangement, emplacement, locating, location, position, order, place, positioning, **2**. allocation; *synonyms* (*n*) allotment, portion, allowance, quota, share, grant, apportioning, apportionment, appropriation, assignment, distribution, measure, part, proportion, ration, **3**. disposition; *synonyms* (*n*) bent, attitude, character, disposal, tendency, bias, inclination, predisposition, propensity, direction, aptitude, array, constitution, heart, humor.
- **розміщувати** locate; *synonyms* (*v*) base, lay, discover, find, localize, set, situate, fix, deposit, determine, identify, install, position, post, (*n*) place.
- розмноження 1. breeding; synonyms (n) education, generation, manners, nurture, reproduction, upbringing, cultivation, culture, fosterage, fostering, procreation, raising, rearing, teaching, training, 2. reproduction; synonyms (n) replica, propagation, duplicate, breeding, copy, copying, facsimile, replication, reappearance, image, duplication, model, second, (adj) fake, imitation; antonym (adj) genuine, 3. proliferation; synonyms (n) growth, spread, upsurge, broadcast, escalation, extent, rise, stretch, intensification, transmission.
- **розмножуватися** breed; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, race, variety, ancestry, sort, order, class, genus, (*v*) engender, beget, multiply, bear, brood, cause, cultivate.
- po3MoBa 1. conversation; synonyms (n) chat, conference, talk, colloquy, communication, discourse, discussion, language, speech, talking, palaver, debate, chitchat, converse, dialogue, 2. dialogue; synonyms (n) conversation, interlocution, interview, dialog, talks, duologue, consultation, 3. discourse; synonyms (n) address, lecture, sermon, harangue, homily, tongue, article, dissertation, oration, confabulation, declaim, (v) speak, confer, recite, commune, 4. talk; synonyms (v) gossip, chatter, articulate, prattle, prate, rap, babble, parley, tattle, say, jaw, gabble, jabber, communicate, (n) parlance, 5. talking; synonyms (v) mean, (n) articulation, explanation, words, dialect, idiom, (adj) sound, good, healthy, heavy, intelligent, legal, levelheaded, profound, reasoned.
- розмовляти 1. talk; synonyms (v) gossip, converse, lecture, chatter, address, articulate, chat, prattle, speak, (n) discourse, language, colloquy, conversation, dialogue, palaver, 2. speak; synonyms (v) express, pronounce, deliver, say, utter, recite, talk, emit, mouth, state, vocalize, voice, mumble, declaim, read.
- **PO3HECEHHЯ** delivery; *synonyms* (*n*) childbirth, birth, consignment, discharge, rescue, communication, confinement, deliverance, distribution, elocution, issue,

- surrender, articulation, (v) address, parturition; *antonyms* (n) death, dispatch.
- **розносити** deliver; *synonyms* (*v*) consign, bear, carry, rescue, save, abandon, bring, liberate, pronounce, render, return, send, utter, drop, acquit.
- **розорений** 1. gone; *synonyms* (*v*) extinct, (*adj*) dead, past, absent, deceased, exhausted, away, bygone, departed, desperate, bypast, foregone, hopeless, late, lost; *antonym* (*adj*) present, 2. broken; *synonyms* (*v*) broke, (*adj*) tame, torn, busted, imperfect, intermittent, rough, rugged, ruined, uneven, disjointed, incomplete, confused, cracked, crushed; *antonyms* (*adj*) constant, unbroken, intact, whole, wild.
- **розоряти** break; *synonyms* (*v*) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (*n*) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; *antonyms* (*v*) repair, obey, honor, mend, (*n*) continuation.
- **розпалювати** whip; *synonyms* (*n*) coachman, (*v*) scourge, lash, flog, strap, beat, flagellate, goad, punish, stir, thrash, trounce, wallop, chastise, cane.
- розпач 1. desperation; *synonyms* (*n*) despair, fury, rage, foolhardiness, recklessness, desperateness, burst, confusion, 2. despair; *synonyms* (*n*) desolation, disappointment, dejection, depression, desperation, discouragement, dismay, gloom, melancholy, pessimism, anguish, despondency, distress, hopelessness, sorrow; *antonyms* (*n*) happiness, hopefulness, expectation, joy, (*v*) hope.
- **po3IIIC** painting; *synonyms* (n) picture, portrait, likeness, depiction, icon, design, image, coat, drawing, art.
- розниска note; synonyms (n) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, bill, distinction, epistle, (v) notice, mind, look, detect; antonym (v) ignore.
- **розпізнавання 1**. identification; *synonyms* (*n*) designation, finding, id, identity, mark, naming, papers, remembering, badge, recognition, denomination, **2**. recognition; *synonyms* (*n*) acknowledgment, appreciation, identification, perception, cognizance, acceptance, acknowledgment, admission, approval, avowal, credit, realization, remembrance, salute, (*adj*) reception.
- **розпізнавати** identify; *synonyms* (*v*) distinguish, detect, discover, name, ascertain, find, know, mark, pinpoint, place, recognize, see, spot, tell, describe.
- **розпізнати** distinguish; *synonyms* (*v*) discern, discriminate, describe, know, perceive, discover, descry, behold, characterize, classify, detect, difference, differentiate, identify, recognize; *antonym* (*v*) confuse.
- **розплідник** nursery; *synonyms* (n) kindergarten, greenhouse, cradle, seminary, nest, glasshouse, puberty, pucelage, pupilage, reformatory, schoolroom, womb, childhood, playgroup, seminarist.
- **po3πoBiдath 1.** relate; *synonyms* (v) connect, narrate, recount, associate, link, tell, appertain, apply, describe, detail, pertain, recite, refer, rehearse, report, **2.** tell; *synonyms* (v) relate, declare, divulge, express, impart, reveal, explain, announce, command, communicate, distinguish, enumerate, inform, (n) disclose, count; *antonym* (v) request.

- **розповідний** narrative; *synonyms* (n) account, narration, tale, anecdote, chronicle, legend, recital, relation, report, story, yarn, description, explanation, fable, (v) history.
- **розповідь** telling; *synonyms* (*adj*) significant, revealing, effective, effectual, emphatic, impressive, pregnant, cogent, powerful, forceful, potent, trenchant, (*n*) recounting, relation, notice.
- PO3ΠOBICTИ 1. tell; synonyms (v) relate, declare, divulge, express, impart, recount, reveal, explain, announce, command, communicate, describe, distinguish, (n) disclose, count; antonym (v) request, 2. relate; synonyms (v) connect, narrate, associate, link, tell, appertain, apply, detail, pertain, recite, refer, rehearse, report, depict, concern.
- **розповсюдження** extension; *synonyms* (n) continuation, augmentation, enlargement, expansion, addition, increase, annex, elongation, expanse, stretch, development, amplification, annexe, circulation, dissemination; *antonyms* (n) limitation, contraction, limit
- **розповсюджуватися** spread; *synonyms* (*v*) scatter, reach, disperse, expand, extend, broadcast, circulate, diffuse, disseminate, increase, propagate, stretch, broaden, deploy, (*n*) span; *antonym* (*adj*) concentrated.
- **розподіл 1**. distribution; synonyms (n) diffusion, dispensation, delivery, deal, allotment, apportionment, arrangement, dispersion, disposition, assignment, dispersal, disposal, division, (v) dissemination, dissipation; *antonym* (n) concentration, 2. division; synonyms (n) department, disagreement, branch, break, class, compartment, part, section, split, cleavage, classification, category, component, (adj) constituent, (v) distribution; antonyms (n) closeness, convergence, estimation, unification, **3**. allocation; *synonyms* (*n*) portion, allowance, quota, share, grant, apportioning, appropriation, measure, proportion, ration, 4. classification; synonyms (n) categorization, grading, assortment, categorisation, order, rank, analysis, breakdown, classifying, method, sorting, system, description, sequence; antonym (n) declassification, 5. dealing; synonyms (n) commerce, trade, transaction, exchange, business, concern, conduct, dealings, handling, traffic, barter, **6**. assignment; synonyms (n) allocation, appointment, assigning, mission, stint, assignation, chore, charge, commission, consignment, designation, duty, job, post, transfer.
- **розподілений** divided; *synonyms* (*adj*) cleft, split, detached, forked, separate, separated, shared, disjointed.
- **розподіляти 1**. deal; *synonyms* (n) bargain, buy, agreement, arrangement, covenant, trade, (v) administer, allot, apportion, conduct, contract, cope, distribute, truck, assign; *antonym* (n) purchase, **2**. share; *synonyms* (n) piece, portion, deal, dole, lot, allotment, division, interest, proportion, (v) participate, part, partake, dispense, divide, partition; *antonym* (v) control.
- **розпоряджатися** order; *synonyms* (*n*) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (*v*) direct, commission, arrange, call; *antonyms* (*n*) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (*v*) disorder, request.

- **розпорядження 1**. order; *synonyms* (*n*) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (*v*) direct, commission, arrange, call; *antonyms* (*n*) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (*v*) disorder, request, **2**. prescription; *synonyms* (*n*) medicine, prescript, drug, formula, direction, order, medication, recipe, law, ordination, receipt, regulation, dose, (*adj*) precept, rule.
- **розпорядник** steward; *synonyms* (*n*) custodian, keeper, waiter, warden, attendant, curator, agent, supervisor, questor, receiver.
- **розпродаж** sale (продаж); *synonyms* (n) fair, disposal, demand, market, vend, vendition, outlet, carnival, contract, dealings, emission, escape, festival, fête, (adj) cheap.
- **PO3ΠYCK** dismissal; *synonyms* (n) discharge, conge, denial, dismission, expulsion, release, removal, deposition, acquittal, dissolution, exclusion, firing, liberation, refusal, rejection.
- PO3IIYCKATU loose; synonyms (adj) lax, liberal, dissolute, licentious, light, vague, detached, immoral, (v) disengage, liberate, relax, release, detach, (n) free, limp; antonyms (adj) tight, close, compressed, dense, taut, strict, compact, wedged.
- **PO3IL'STTS** CrOSS; *synonyms* (n) crisscross, affliction, (v) intersect, baffle, cover, thwart, (adj) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; *antonyms* (v) uncross, (adj) calm, good-tempered.
- **розрахований** calculated; *synonyms* (*v*) advised, designed, (*adj*) deliberate, conscious, intended, intentional, premeditated, purposeful, studied, measured, planned, strategic; *antonym* (*adj*) accidental.
- pospaxobybatu 1. calculate; synonyms (v) count, estimate, account, add, appraise, cipher, compute, deem, enumerate, forecast, gauge, guess, make, reckon, consider, 2. depend; synonyms (v) dangle, hang, rely, calculate, confide, stay, suspend, attend, 3. expect; synonyms (v) anticipate, assume, believe, demand, understand, abide, await, hope, suppose, think, conceive, call, mean, ask, bear.
- **розрахунковий** calculated; *synonyms* (*v*) advised, designed, (*adj*) deliberate, conscious, intended, intentional, premeditated, purposeful, studied, measured, planned, strategic; *antonym* (*adj*) accidental.
- **розрахунок 1.** accounting; *synonyms* (*adj*) clerical, office, secretarial, (*n*) bookkeeping, account, accountancy, chronicle, explanation, grounds, history, story, **2.** calculation; *synonyms* (*n*) reckoning, analysis, arithmetic, computation, deliberation, discretion, estimate, forecast, anticipation, projection, count, expectation, figuring, (*v*) estimation, (*adj*) circumspection, **3.** account; *synonyms* (*n*) bill, narrative, regard, score, tale, description, narration, reason, recital, tab, tally, bulletin, check, (*v*) report, calculate.
- **po3phB 1**. tear; *synonyms* (n) split, rupture, rent, (v) break, rip, crack, pull, rend, lacerate, race, run, rush, slit, rive, cleave, 2. breach; *synonyms* (n) aperture, chink, crevice, fracture, gap, infringement, opening, rift, trespass, cranny, burst, cleft, (v) contravene, fissure,

- violate; *antonym* (n) observance, **3**. split; *synonyms* (v) cut, divide, separate, divorce, breach, division, fork, part, sever, apportion, scatter, bisect, (n) tear, cleavage, parting; *antonyms* (v) join, unite, merge.
- **розривати** break; *synonyms* (*v*) split, crack, burst, fail, infringe, leak, (*n*) breach, fracture, pause, rupture, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension; *antonyms* (*v*) repair, obey, honor, mend, (*n*) continuation.
- po3pi3 1. cut; *synonyms* (*v*) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (*n*) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, lengthen, (*n*) addition, extension, 2. section; *synonyms* (*n*) division, part, portion, compartment, percentage, piece, class, branch, chapter, clause, department, episode, partition, region, (*v*) segment.
- **PO3PI3ATM** nick; *synonyms* (*n*) notch, mark, cut, chip, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (*v*) dent, steal, hack, indent.
- розрізнений odd; synonyms (adj) grotesque, exceptional, funny, abnormal, curious, droll, eccentric, extraordinary, singular, strange, chance, novel, anomalous, bizarre, fantastic; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, even, typical.
- розрізнення 1. appreciation; synonyms (n) admiration, acknowledgment, approval, awareness, conception, estimation, feeling, grasp, praise, recognition, respect, taste, understanding, adoration, (v) sense; antonym (n) depreciation, 2. distinction; synonyms (n) contrast, difference, discrimination, eminence, rank, dissimilarity, demarcation, celebrity, prestige, reputation, consequence, differentiation, discrepancy, disparity, excellence; antonym (n) similarity.
- **розрізнити** distinguish; *synonyms* (*v*) discern, discriminate, describe, know, perceive, discover, descry, behold, characterize, classify, detect, difference, differentiate, identify, recognize; *antonym* (*v*) confuse.
- PO3PI3HЯТИ 1. appreciate; synonyms (v) esteem, prize, treasure, value, appraise, fathom, acknowledge, admire, apprize, cherish, comprehend, enjoy, estimate, grasp, (adj) understand; antonyms (v) depreciate, scorn, 2. distinguish; synonyms (v) discern, discriminate, describe, know, perceive, discover, descry, behold, characterize, classify, detect, difference, differentiate, identify, recognize; antonym (v) confuse.
- розробка 1. development; *synonyms* (*n*) evolution, course, growth, improvement, increase, progress, spread, advance, augmentation, change, developing, effect, elaboration, expansion, movement; *antonyms* (*n*) deterioration, decline, neglect, decrease, **2**. operation; *synonyms* (*n*) execution, act, agency, business, management, action, function, functioning, performance, running, mission, task, job, activity, employment.
- PO3POBJISTH 1. develop; synonyms (v) advance, amplify, educate, expand, grow, breed, contract, acquire, bloom, blossom, break, bud, build, come, cultivate; antonyms (v) decrease, erupt, neglect, regress, 2. design; synonyms (n) aim, purpose, scheme, conception, drawing, arrangement, device, idea, intent, contrivance, (v) plan, conceive, contrive, sketch, construct; antonym (n) chance, 3. operate; synonyms (v) act, function, run, direct, employ, go, handle, manage, move, perform, proceed, work, maneuver, exercise, fly.

- **розробник** developer; *synonyms* (n) builder, constructor, pioneer.
- розряд 1. class; *synonyms* (*n*) category, group, form, grade, position, arrange, brand, department, kind, (*v*) sort, place, rank, categorize, classify, order, **2**. category; *synonyms* (*n*) class, denomination, division, type, variety, level, cohort, plight, breed, classification, collection, estate, family, nature, predicament, **3**. rate; *synonyms* (*n*) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (*v*) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put.
- **розсадник** nursery; *synonyms* (*n*) kindergarten, greenhouse, cradle, seminary, nest, glasshouse, puberty, pucelage, pupilage, reformatory, schoolroom, womb, childhood, playgroup, seminarist.
- **розслаблення** relaxation; *synonyms* (n) ease, diversion, amusement, pastime, entertainment, recreation, rest, leisure, comfort, quiet, remission, repose, respite, peace, hobby.
- розслаблятися relax; synonyms (v) loose, abate, give, lounge, unbend, melt, debilitate, ease, relieve, remit, rest, slack, (n) loosen, release, (adj) relent; antonyms (v) tighten, tense.
- **розслідування** 1. inquiry; *synonyms* (*n*) examination, enquiry, investigation, exploration, hearing, inquest, query, question, research, trial, demand, analysis, inspection, probe, (*v*) search, 2. investigation; *synonyms* (*n*) inquiry, scrutiny, check, review, investigating, study, audit, interrogation, hunt, experiment, inquire, inquisition, quest, survey, test.
- **розслідувати** 1. detect; *synonyms* (v) catch, discover, find, ascertain, discern, notice, observe, see, spot, trace, determine, distinguish, identify, locate, descry, 2. investigate; *synonyms* (v) examine, explore, inquire, inspect, search, check, research, ask, hunt, analyze, enquire, interrogate, scrutinize, study, test.
- **PO3CTABJISTU** post; *synonyms* (n) place, function, office, position, pillar, stake, attitude, berth, column, job, (ν) mail, locate, base, enter, lay.
- **розстилати** spread; *synonyms* (*v*) scatter, reach, disperse, expand, extend, broadcast, circulate, diffuse, disseminate, increase, propagate, stretch, broaden, deploy, (*n*) span; *antonym* (*adj*) concentrated.
- **розстроювати** disorder; *synonyms* (*n*) ailment, complaint, clutter, disease, jumble, muddle, chaos, commotion, confusion, disarrangement, disturbance, (*v*) derange, disarray, confuse, perturb; *antonyms* (*n*) orderliness, calm, peace, (*v*) order.
- розсудливий 1. wise; synonyms (adj) judicious, reasonable, sensible, intelligent, knowing, prudent, rational, sagacious, sound, discreet, shrewd, sane, discerning, thoughtful, (n) method; antonyms (adj) foolish, unwise, stupid, 2. advisable; synonyms (adj) desirable, expedient, advantageous, suitable, fitting; antonym (adj) inadvisable, 3. reasonable; synonyms (adj) just, moderate, fair, legitimate, admissible, appropriate, cheap, due, equitable, impartial, inexpensive, plausible, temperate, acceptable, (n) clear; antonyms (adj) illogical, unreasonable, expensive, unfair, unsatisfactory, inadequate, 4. sober; synonyms (adj) serious, grave, sedate, earnest, quiet, solemn, modest,

- abstemious, demure, dull, serene, somber, staid, severe, composed; *antonym* (*adj*) intoxicated, **5**. sensible; *synonyms* (*adj*) aware, perceptible, wise, appreciable, sage, logical, practical, conscious, sapient, advisable, careful, clever, cognizant, palpable, sensitive; *antonyms* (*adj*) absurd, crazy, idiotic, imprudent, ludicrous, mad, outrageous, reckless, ridiculous, silly, harebrained, hasty, impractical.
- **розташований** situated; *synonyms* (*adj*) located, set, situate, placed, sited, fixed.
- розташовувати 1. dispose; *synonyms* (v) arrange, incline, adjust, order, predispose, discard, lead, place, position, range, regulate, tend, (n) array, bias, influence; *antonym* (v) indispose, 2. arrange; *synonyms* (v) appoint, dress, set, settle, pack, adapt, agree, classify, compose, decorate, do, engineer, fix, provide, put; *antonyms* (v) disturb, disarrange.
- PO3TAIIIYBAHHЯ 1. disposition; synonyms (n) bent, attitude, character, disposal, tendency, arrangement, bias, inclination, predisposition, propensity, direction, aptitude, array, constitution, distribution, 2. arrangement; synonyms (n) agreement, order, settlement, adjustment, classification, contract, design, method, plan, sequence, system, accommodation, appointment, accord, composition, 3. disposal; synonyms (n) disposition, administration, organization, sale, alienation, control, dispensation, adhibition, 4. situation; synonyms (n) place, employment, position, post, job, matter, circumstance, circumstances, condition, location, office, point, seat, site, rank
- **розташувати** locate; *synonyms* (*v*) base, lay, discover, find, localize, set, situate, fix, deposit, determine, identify, install, position, post, (*n*) place.
- **po3Tep3ahhs** Worry; *synonyms* (*v*) torment, trouble, bother, distress, tease, annoy, care, disturb, fear, molest, (*n*) concern, burden, harass, pain, fuss; *antonyms* (*v*) soothe, reassure, (*n*) calmness, reassurance.
- **PO3TUH** Cut; *synonyms* (v) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (n) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (v) increase, lengthen. (n) addition, extension.
- **розтягнутий** lengthy; *synonyms* (*adj*) extended, extensive, long, protracted, wordy, copious, elongated, exuberant, prolonged, verbose, largiloquent; *antonyms* (*adj*) short, brief.
- **розтягування** stretching; *synonyms* (*adj*) long, expansive, (*n*) extension, stretch, tension, amplification, exaggeration, growth, reach, reaching, stint, stretchability, stretchiness.
- postfifybath 1. stretch; synonyms (n) extent, run, expanse, extension, range, (v) extend, reach, strain, elongate, lengthen, prolong, spread, draw, enlarge, broaden; antonym (v) shorten, 2. pull; synonyms (v) drag, draught, pluck, attract, haul, jerk, tug, pick, make, force, hale, lure, (n) wrench, attraction, effort; antonyms (v) push, repel.
- postfifybathcs yield; synonyms (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; antonyms (v) resist, persevere.

- розум 1. mind; synonyms (n) intellect, brain, head, inclination, intelligence, psyche, regard, (v) care, look, attend, beware, keep, listen, notice, (adj) heed; antonym (v) forget, 2. wit; synonyms (n) humor, wag, humorist, satire, repartee, mentality, sense, sagacity, nous, humour, joker, mind, pleasantry, understanding, (adj) irony; antonym (n) tragedy, 3. reason; synonyms (n) account, occasion, argument, object, purpose, rationality, basis, explanation, (v) cause, argue, debate, conclude, deduce, discuss, ground, 4. intelligence; synonyms (n) information, cleverness, news, tidings, acumen, brains, capacity, comprehension, knowledge, sharpness, wisdom, wit, genius, aptitude, communication; antonyms (n) stupidity, emotion, 5. understanding; synonyms (n) reason, appreciation, agreement, apprehension, bargain, deal, judgment, sympathy, arrangement, contract, grasp, insight, meaning, (v) discernment, notion; antonyms (n) ignorance, bewilderment, disbelief.
- розуміння 1. apprehension; synonyms (n) alarm, comprehension, dread, arrest, capture, foreboding, misgiving, trepidation, understanding, appreciation, anticipation, agitation, (adj) anxiety, care, (v) doubt; antonyms (n) reassurance, release, confidence, calmness, 2. understanding; synonyms (n) intellect, mind, reason, agreement, apprehension, bargain, deal, judgment, sense, sympathy, arrangement, contract, grasp, (v) intelligence, discernment; antonyms (n) ignorance, bewilderment, disbelief, 3. insight; synonyms (n) vision, acumen, penetration, perception, brainwave, acquaintance, idea, knowledge, acuteness, clairvoyance, foresight, ken, notion, awareness, brainstorm, 4. comprehension; synonyms (n) conception, inclusion, wit, capacity, familiarity, insight, admission; antonyms (n) misunderstanding, incomprehension, 5. conception; synonyms (n) concept, creation, thought, view, belief, design, fancy, image, imagination, impression, invention, initiation, conceit, construct, inkling; antonym (n) misconception.
- po3ymitu 1. understand; synonyms (v) interpret, recognize, catch, hear, learn, realize, see, appreciate, assume, believe, comprehend, construe, deduce, gather, grasp; antonyms (v) misinterpret, misconstrue, misunderstand, 2. appreciate; synonyms (v) esteem, prize, treasure, value, appraise, fathom, acknowledge, admire, apprize, cherish, enjoy, estimate, know, like, (adj) understand; antonyms (v) depreciate, scorn, 3. grip; synonyms (n) clasp, clutch, handle, bag, clench, clinch, clutches, (v) hold, cling, apprehend, embrace, fascinate, grab, grapple, gripe; antonyms (v) bore, release, 4. think; synonyms (v) consider, reckon, guess, imagine, muse, ponder, reflect, regard, suppose, cogitate, conjecture, contemplate, deliberate, expect, meditate; antonym (v) forget.
- розумний 1. intelligent; synonyms (adj) clever, alert, astute, bright, intellectual, quick-witted, rational, sensible, cunning, brilliant, canny, gifted, knowing, knowledgeable, quick; antonyms (adj) unintelligent, dim, dull-witted, thick, slow, stupid, 2. wise; synonyms (adj) judicious, reasonable, intelligent, prudent, sagacious, sound, discreet, shrewd, sane, discerning,

- thoughtful, sage, sapient, (n) method, manner; antonyms (adj) foolish, unwise, 3. clever; synonyms (adj) adroit, capable, acute, able, apt, smart, expert, ingenious, sharp, skillful, artful, learned, adept, brainy, (v) brisk; antonyms (adj) clumsy, dull, inept, 4. reasonable; synonyms (adj) just, moderate, fair, legitimate, admissible, appropriate, cheap, due, equitable, impartial, inexpensive, plausible, temperate, acceptable, (n) clear; antonyms (adj) illogical, unreasonable, expensive, unfair, unsatisfactory, inadequate, 5. advisable; synonyms (adj) desirable, expedient, advantageous, suitable, fitting; antonym (adi) inadvisable. 6. understanding: synonyms (n) intellect, mind, reason, appreciation, comprehension, agreement, apprehension, bargain, deal, judgment, sense, sympathy, arrangement, (v) intelligence, discernment; antonyms (n) ignorance, bewilderment, disbelief, 7. sensible; synonyms (adj) aware, perceptible, wise, appreciable, logical, practical, conscious, advisable, careful, cognizant, palpable, sensitive, realistic, susceptible, feeling; antonyms (adj) absurd, crazy, idiotic, imprudent, ludicrous, mad, outrageous, reckless, ridiculous, silly, harebrained, hasty, impractical, 8. rational; synonyms (adj) mental, sober, lucid, philosophical, coherent, justifiable, reasoned, right, cerebral, convincing; antonyms (adj) irrational, anxious.
- розумно well (добре); synonyms (adv) right, easily, thoroughly, considerably, fully, good, (adj) healthy, fit, shaft, sound, robust, (n) fountain, spring, pit, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous.
- **розумовий** mental; *synonyms* (*adj*) intellectual, ideal, psychic, subjective, insane, psychical, psychological, spiritual, genial; *antonyms* (*adj*) physical, bodily.
- **розходження 1**. variety; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, sort, species, change, form, style, type, variation, breed, diversity, genus, miscellany, nature, (*adj*) class, (*v*) difference; *antonym* (*n*) uniformity, **2**. contradiction; *synonyms* (*n*) antithesis, denial, clash, contrast, disagreement, discrepancy, inconsistency, opposite, refutation, reverse; *antonym* (*n*) agreement.
- розходитися dismiss; synonyms (v) discharge, cashier, cast, disband, discard, drop, bounce, can, cease, dispatch, banish, disallow, discount, displace, dissolve; antonyms (v) hire, employ.
- **розцінка** tariff; *synonyms* (*n*) duty, charge, excise, custom, tax, assessment, price, cost, fee, toll, benevolence, exactment, gavel, levy, octroi.
- **розцінювати** quote; *synonyms* (*v*) cite, mention, name, exemplify, retell, present, refer, (*n*) adduce, excerpt, extract, quotation, citation, passage, price, (*adj*) illustrate.
- **розчарований** disappointed; *synonyms* (*adj*) defeated, disgruntled, regretful, depressed, dissatisfied, frustrated, sad, unhappy, disenchanted; *antonyms* (*adj*) delighted, pleased, composed, satisfied.
- **розчарування** 1. disappointment; *synonyms* (n) defeat, anticlimax, comedown, failure, frustration, letdown, annoyance, discouragement, disillusionment, dismay, misfortune, regret, reverse, setback, shame; *antonyms* (n) success, satisfaction, boost, 2.

- frustration; *synonyms* (*n*) disappointment, vexation, check, anger, irritation, dissatisfaction, foiling.
- **po34HH** solution; *synonyms* (*n*) dissolution, resolution, answer, settlement, resolve, determination, explanation, key, result, remedy, definition, resolving, clarification, liquid, reply.
- **розчинення 1.** dissolution; *synonyms* (*n*) decay, breakup, decomposition, abolition, cancellation, analysis, dismissal, annulment, death, dissipation, demise, adjournment, departure, disintegration, licentiousness, **2.** solution; *synonyms* (*n*) dissolution, resolution, answer, settlement, resolve, determination, explanation, key, result, remedy, definition, resolving, clarification, liquid, reply.
- **PO3'44HSTH** Solve; *synonyms* (v) resolve, interpret, answer, decipher, dissolve, crack, elucidate, explain, riddle, decide, loosen, figure, guess, conclude, (adj) loose
- **PO3-44H STACS** Solve; synonyms (v) resolve, interpret, answer, decipher, dissolve, crack, elucidate, explain, riddle, decide, loosen, figure, guess, conclude, (adj) loose.
- **розширения 1**. expansion; *synonyms* (*n*) amplification, enlargement, development, dilatation, dilation, elaboration, growth, stretch, distention, evolution, increase, inflation, swelling, (*v*) extension, augmentation; *antonyms* (*n*) contraction, decrease, reduction, abbreviation, **2**. extension; *synonyms* (*n*) continuation, expansion, addition, annex, elongation, expanse, annexe, circulation, dissemination, prolongation, reach, space, spread, dimension, addendum; *antonyms* (*n*) limitation, limit
- розширювати 1. expand; synonyms (v) amplify, enlarge, balloon, broaden, develop, distend, aggrandize, augment, extend, inflate, swell, explicate, bloat, elaborate, (adj) dilate; antonyms (v) contract, shorten, abbreviate, decrease, deflate, reduce, shrink, summarize, narrow, 2. extend; synonyms (v) expand, widen, continue, elongate, go, spread, carry, increase, offer, contribute, advance, crane, cover, grow, (adj) stretch; antonyms (v) withdraw, limit.
- **розширюватися** expand; *synonyms* (*v*) amplify, enlarge, balloon, broaden, develop, distend, aggrandize, augment, extend, inflate, swell, explicate, bloat, elaborate, (*adj*) dilate; *antonyms* (*v*) contract, shorten, abbreviate, decrease, deflate, reduce, shrink, summarize, narrow.
- **розширяти** extend; *synonyms* (*v*) expand, enlarge, amplify, broaden, dilate, widen, augment, continue, elongate, go, spread, carry, develop, increase, (*adj*) stretch; *antonyms* (*v*) withdraw, shorten, limit, narrow, shrink.
- **розшук** quest; *synonyms* (n) pursuit, investigation, inquiry, examination, chase, exploration, expedition, inquest, research, (v) search, hunt, probe, explore, demand, ask.
- **роз'яснення** key; *synonyms* (*adj*) central, fundamental, basic, cardinal, essential, chief, important, principal, (*n*) guide, handle, clue, legend, clef, password, (*v*) identify.
- **po3'яснювати** clarify; *synonyms* (*v*) clear, clean, elaborate, elucidate, explain, purge, defecate, expound,

- illuminate, refine, show, solve, brighten, cleanse, (adj) edulcorate; antonyms (v) confuse, obscure, complicate, blur obfuscate
- **poκ** rock; *synonyms* (n) boulder, calculus, pillar, (v) jar, sway, cradle, jolt, shake, toss, waver, quake, pitch, reel, (adj) pebble, stone.
- **рокіруватися** castle; *synonyms* (*n*) rook, citadel, fortification, fortress, castling, fort, keep, mansion, palace, stronghold, tower, house, chateau, court, (*v*) donjon.
- **РОКОВИНИ** anniversary; *synonyms* (*n*) birthday, celebration, festival, holiday, anniverse, milestone, ceremony, feast, festivity, recurrence, (*adi*) annual.
- **РОЛЬ 1.** role; *synonyms* (*n*) part, function, position, character, place, job, persona, post, purpose, use, guise, (*v*) office, duty, **2.** part; *synonyms* (*n*) constituent, piece, article, component, cut, division, portion, section, share, (*v*) branch, break, disjoin, divide, divorce, class; *antonyms* (*n*) whole, entirety, (*adj*) complete.
- **pomah 1**. novel; *synonyms* (*n*) fiction, romance, book, (*adj*) new, curious, fresh, modern, different, unprecedented, original, newfangled, recent, strange, unfamiliar, unique; *antonym* (*adj*) old, **2**. romance; *synonyms* (*n*) novel, story, intrigue, affair, fable, romanticism, tale, vagary, (*v*) court, flirt, exaggerate, woo, coquet, coquette, dally.
- **POMAHTHK** romantic; *synonyms* (*adj*) sentimental, amorous, impractical, fanciful, romanticist, unrealistic, utopian, amatory, fictitious, loving, poetic, tender, idealistic, (*n*) visionary, idealist; *antonym* (*n*) realist.
- **романтика** romance; *synonyms* (n) fiction, novel, story, intrigue, affair, fable, romanticism, tale, vagary, (v) court, flirt, exaggerate, woo, coquet, coquette.
- **романтичний** romantic; *synonyms* (*adj*) sentimental, amorous, impractical, fanciful, romanticist, unrealistic, utopian, amatory, fictitious, loving, poetic, tender, idealistic, (*n*) visionary, idealist; *antonym* (*n*) realist.
- **рослина 1**. plant; *synonyms* (*n*) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, (*v*) fix, place, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lay, bury, **2**. vegetable; *synonyms* (*n*) plant, vegetive, greens, artifice, cabbage, engender, generate, install, instate, plan, sapling, settle, swindle, trick, (*adj*) vegetal.
- **рослини** plant; *synonyms* (n) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, (v) fix, place, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lay, bury.
- **рослинний** vegetable; *synonyms* (n) plant, vegetive, greens, artifice, cabbage, engender, establish, fix, generate, install, instate, plan, sapling, settle, (adj) vegetal.
- **рослинність** vegetation; *synonyms* (n) flora, growth, plants, foliage, quietism, plant, bushes, flowers, idleness, shrubs, undergrowth, grass, leaves.
- **POCTU** grow; *synonyms* (v) advance, augment, develop, enlarge, expand, come, emerge, become, farm, get, rise, spring, turn, breed, accrue; *antonyms* (v) decrease, weaken, shrink.
- **pot** mouth; *synonyms* (*n*) jaw, lip, aperture, lips, edge, entrance, brim, (*v*) grimace, articulate, pronounce, speak, utter, vocalize, blab, deliver.

- рояль 1. grand; synonyms (adj) excellent, gorgeous, dignified, elevated, eminent, exalted, important, majestic, superb, beautiful, high, massive, (n) glorious, noble, (v) great; antonyms (adj) unimpressive, humble, modest, 2. piano; synonyms (n) pianoforte, pianissimo, (adj) soft, gentle, cushy, delicate, easy, faint, indulgent, lax, lenient, nonalcoholic, (adv) gently, lightly, softly; antonym (adv) forte.
- PYFATM fell; synonyms (v) chop, cut, drop, floor, ax, level, down, demolish, (adj) barbarous, cruel, prostrate, brutal, fierce, savage, (n) skin.
- **рубрика** heading; *synonyms* (*n*) caption, bearing, drift, head, title, course, direction, tack, name, chief, header, leading, line, way, aim.
- **рудник** mine; *synonyms* (n) dig, excavation, pit, fund, vein, shaft, (v) excavate, sap, burrow, exploit, bore, tunnel, undermine, (adj) delve, gouge.
- Рудуватий sandy; synonyms (adj) gritty, light, granular, arenaceous, sabulous, dusty, farinaceous, loose, mealy, powdery, branny, creamy, flaxen, flocculent, floury.
- **pyïhu** debris; synonyms (n) detritus, junk, refuse, rubbish, trash, waste, garbage, wreck, muck, remains, ruins, scrap, litter, (adi) rubble.
- **руйнація** destruction; *synonyms* (n) death, collapse, ruin, abolition, damage, demolition, desolation, devastation, downfall, end, bane, depredation, disaster, (v) defeat, doom; *antonyms* (n) construction, creation, preservation, protection, conservation, formation, reparation.
- руйнівний destructive; synonyms (adj) baneful, deadly, hurtful, malign, baleful, evil, fatal, harmful, injurious, mischievous, noxious, pernicious, deleterious, calamitous, negative; antonyms (adj) harmless, constructive, creative.
- руйнування 1. demolition; *synonyms* (*n*) annihilation, demolishment, destruction, devastation, obliteration, ruin, razing, sabotage, death, disposal, bulldozing, destroyer, downfall, end, explosion; *antonym* (*n*) construction, 2. collapse; *synonyms* (*n*) crash, breakdown, fall, subsidence, bust, debacle, (*v*) break, slump, buckle, crack, crumble, crumple, faint, flop, burst, 3. destruction; *synonyms* (*n*) collapse, abolition, damage, demolition, desolation, bane, depredation, disaster, extermination, havoc, loss, rack, ruination, (*v*) defeat, doom; *antonyms* (*n*) creation, preservation, protection, conservation, formation, reparation.
- руйнувати 1. destroy; synonyms (v) break, demolish, blight, despoil, annihilate, blast, crush, dash, destruct, devastate, devour, dismantle, (adj) desolate, abolish, consume; antonyms (v) build, preserve, create, make, 2. harry; synonyms (v) badger, molest, plague, disturb, afflict, bother, hassle, maraud, pester, beleaguer, annoy, beset, chevy, (adj) harass, worry, 3. attack; synonyms (n) incursion, thrust, aggression, fit, onset, onslaught, seizure, (v) assault, assail, attempt, aggress, charge, invade, raid, accuse; antonyms (n) defense, (v) defend, protect, retreat.
- **руйнуватися** 1. decay; *synonyms* (*n*) decline, decomposition, ebb, corruption, disintegration, collapse, deterioration, (*v*) rot, decompose, blight, rust, crumble, corrupt, decrease, deteriorate; *antonym* (*n*) growth, 2.

- collapse; *synonyms* (*n*) crash, breakdown, fall, subsidence, bust, debacle, defeat, (*v*) break, slump, buckle, crack, crumple, faint, flop, burst.
- **pyka 1**. hand; *synonyms* (n) deal, aid, applause, employee, paw, worker, (v) deliver, give, pass, commit, bestow, afford, communicate, reach, grant, **2**. arm; *synonyms* (n) branch, wing, bay, department, division, limb, might, offshoot, power, section, sleeve, (v) equip, furnish, outfit, provide; *antonym* (v) disarm.
- **PYKAB 1.** sleeve; *synonyms* (n) arm, case, liner, cover, cuff, collar, sheath, skin, socket, wristband, gauntlet, glove, mitten, (v) mesh, net, **2.** arm; *synonyms* (n) branch, wing, bay, department, division, limb, might, offshoot, power, section, sleeve, (v) equip, furnish, outfit, provide; *antonym* (v) disarm.
- **рукопис 1.** manuscript; *synonyms* (*n*) codex, writing, book, handwriting, copy, record, text, document, holograph, **2.** copy; *synonyms* (*n*) imitation, trace, transcription, forgery, reproduction, (*v*) counterfeit, imitate, ape, duplicate, model, pattern, follow, echo, fake, mimic; *antonym* (*n*) original, **3.** script; *synonyms* (*n*) calligraphy, hand, inscription, lettering, letters, treatment, playscript.
- **рукописний** manuscript; *synonyms* (*n*) codex, writing, book, handwriting, copy, record, text, document, holograph.
- рукоятка 1. handle; synonyms (v) administer, conduct, feel, wield, control, deal, direct, finger, manage, manipulate, touch, treat, (n) grip, clutch, grasp, 2. grasp; synonyms (n) catch, clasp, clinch, appreciation, apprehension, (v) comprehend, embrace, hold, apprehend, grapple, conceive, capture, cling, grab, clench; antonym (v) release, 3. shaft; synonyms (n) arrow, handle, axis, beam, pit, dart, pillar, axle, bar, lance, mine, post, ray, well, (v) cheat.
- **PYJOH** roll; *synonyms* (*n*) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (*v*) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow.
- рулонний endless; synonyms (adj) constant, continual, ceaseless, continuous, interminable, perpetual, eternal, everlasting, incessant, uninterrupted, boundless, countless, dateless, infinite, limitless; antonyms (adj) finite, temporary, intermittent, limited, restricted.
- рум'яний red (червоний); synonyms (adj) crimson, flushed, carmine, glowing, rosy, ruby, sanguine, cherry, pink, radical, ruddy, scarlet, cerise, bloody, inflamed.
- **русло** channel; *synonyms* (*n*) canal, conduit, groove, drain, duct, line, passage, trough, waterway, aqueduct, link, hollow, (*v*) carry, conduct, convey.
- **рутина** routine; *synonyms* (*n*) round, habit, method, procedure, process, act, custom, (*adj*) everyday, ordinary, regular, common, customary, habitual, mundane, normal; *antonym* (*adj*) unusual.
- pyx 1. movement; synonyms (n) motion, move, action, activity, campaign, crusade, advancement, cause, drive, passage, drift, flow, inclination, effort, evolution, 2. motion; synonyms (n) gesture, movement, wave, exercise, gesticulation, play, application, question, resolution, swing, progress, (v) sign, beckon, gesticulate, signal, 3. traffic; synonyms (n) dealings, commerce, business, dealing, interchange, intercourse, travel, (v)

- exchange, trade, deal, barter, bargain, truck, custom, employment, **4**. progression; *synonyms* (*n*) advance, headway, improvement, furtherance, chain, course, development, sequence, series, suite, train, gradation, way, growth, (*adj*) succession, **5**. process; *synonyms* (*n*) operation, proceeding, method, procedure, act, formula, outgrowth, means, mode, practice, (*v*) function, refine, litigate, treat, work, **6**. running; *synonyms* (*v*) active, (*adj*) flowing, operative, continual, working, functioning, moving, consecutive, live, fluid, (*n*) administration, run, performance, handling, charge, **7**. move; *synonyms* (*v*) affect, carry, excite, go, impel, instigate, maneuver, touch, bear, disturb, actuate, agitate, arouse, (*n*) transfer, change; *antonym* (*v*) stay.
- **PYXATH 1.** move; *synonyms* (*v*) act, affect, carry, excite, go, impel, instigate, maneuver, touch, travel, flow, bear, (*n*) motion, drive, transfer; *antonym* (*v*) stay, **2.** stir; *synonyms* (*v*) arouse, budge, move, rouse, agitate, inspire, cause, foment, (*n*) movement, commotion, disturbance, excitement, agitation, fuss, (*adj*) bustle.
- **PYXATUCS** move; *synonyms* (*v*) act, affect, carry, excite, go, impel, instigate, maneuver, touch, travel, flow, bear, (*n*) motion, drive, transfer; *antonym* (*v*) stay.
- **рухливий 1**. mobile; *synonyms* (*adj*) changeable, fluid, unsettled, mercurial, expressive, lively, migrant, motile, erratic, flying, nomadic, peregrine, roving, (*v*) movable, shifting; *antonyms* (*adj*) immobile, impassive, motionless, **2**. moving; *synonyms* (*adj*) active, affecting, emotional, exciting, impressive, mobile, pitful, poignant, touching, inspiring, imposing, (*n*) movement, transport, advance, transfer; *antonyms* (*adj*) still, depressing, stationary, unemotional.
- **рухливість** mobility; *synonyms* (*n*) movableness, motion, movement, (*adj*) versatility.
- **руховий** motive; *synonyms* (n) cause, ground, account, impulse, incentive, incitement, inducement, motif, motivation, reason, subject, design, grounds, (v) aim, consideration.
- **рухомий 1**. mobile; *synonyms* (*adj*) changeable, fluid, unsettled, mercurial, expressive, lively, migrant, motile, erratic, flying, nomadic, peregrine, roving, (v) movable, shifting; *antonyms* (*adj*) immobile, impassive, motionless, **2**. floating; *synonyms* (*adj*) drifting, buoyant, aimless, current, loose, (*adv*) afloat.
- **ручатися 1**. ensure; *synonyms* (*v*) assure, cover, ascertain, check, guarantee, insure, secure, control, determine, promise, safeguard, see, warrant, **2**. undertake; *synonyms* (*v*) attempt, try, accept, contract, covenant, tackle, take, assume, begin, engage, endeavor, seek, do, endure, essay.
- **РУЧИТИСЯ** Warrant; *synonyms* (n) guarantee, authority, vouch, authorization, security, certificate, commission, (v) permit, license, assure, justify, sanction, ensure, authorize, empower.
- ручка 1. pen; synonyms (n) corral, cage, ballpoint, enclosure, fold, jail, coop, playpen, (v) enclose, confine, compose, impound, indite, write, inclose, 2. arm; synonyms (n) branch, wing, bay, department, division, limb, might, offshoot, power, section, sleeve, (v) equip, furnish, outfit, provide; antonym (v) disarm, 3. handle; synonyms (v) administer, conduct, feel, wield, control,

- deal, direct, finger, manage, manipulate, touch, treat, (n) grip, clutch, grasp.
- **ручний 1.** manual; *synonyms* (*n*) handbook, guide, guidebook, brochure, primer, text, textbook, compendium, grammar, abecedary, codex, libretto; *antonyms* (*adj*) automatic, mechanized, **2.** hand (рука); *synonyms* (*n*) deal, aid, applause, employee, paw, worker, (*v*) deliver, give, pass, commit, bestow, afford, communicate, reach, grant.
- **рушати** start; *synonyms* (*v*) begin, originate, commence, drive, launch, embark, spring, activate, arise, (*n*) jump, onset, origin, shock, beginning, commencement; *antonyms* (*v*) end, finish, stop, conclude, halt, (*n*) conclusion.
- **рушійний 1.** moving; *synonyms* (*adf*) active, affecting, emotional, exciting, impressive, mobile, pitiful, poignant, touching, inspiring, movable, (*n*) movement, transport, advance, transfer; *antonyms* (*adf*) motionless, still, depressing, stationary, unemotional, **2.** motive; *synonyms* (*n*) cause, ground, account, impulse, incentive, incitement, inducement, motif, motivation, reason, subject, design, grounds, (*y*) aim, consideration.
- **рушник** towel; *synonyms* (n) mop, (v) wipe, napkin, handkerchief, cloth, malkin, maukin, dry, wallop, bang, bastinado, birch, cane, cob, comb.
- **рушниця 1**. gun; *synonyms* (*n*) artillery, gunman, handgun, ordnance, pistol, revolver, shooter, torpedo, accelerator, arrow, gas, (*v*) shoot, cracker, **2**. rifle; *synonyms* (*n*) gun, firearm, (*v*) pillage, plunder, despoil, loot, ransack, steal, foray, reave, take, deprive, gut, rob, sack.
- ряд 1. rank; synonyms (n) range, place, file, gradation, line, degree, quality, (v) arrange, order, class, classify, grade, position, array, group; antonym (adj) fresh, 2. line; synonyms (n) cord, house, breed, course, family, lineage, field, ancestry, border, boundary, cable, crease, row, stock, trace, 3. row; synonyms (n) altercation, rank, squabble, wrangle, clash, dispute, turmoil, (v) quarrel, brawl, fight, argue, bicker, broil, (adj) fracas, riot; antonyms (n) agreement, (v) agree, 4. file; synonyms (n) archive, document, list, procession, record, roll, series, string, tabulate, inventory, (v) rasp, register, scrape, abrade, grind, 5. range; synonyms (n) area, compass, reach, scope, domain, distance, extent, latitude, (v) roam, ramble, wander, align, gad, dispose, go, 6. series: synonyms (n) chain, collection, cycle, round. run, sequence, serial, set, succession, rash. concatenation, suite, arrangement, bank, (adj) progression.
- рядовий 1. private; synonyms (adj) clandestine, confidential, personal, covert, hidden, individual, secret, inner, esoteric, exclusive, intimate, particular, domestic, interior, (v) close; antonyms (adj) public, communal, community, nationalized, official, state-owned, civic, shared, state, 2. ordinary; synonyms (adj) middling, average, familiar, mediocre, usual, commonplace, everyday, habitual, normal, mean, banal, (n) common, customary, accustomed, (v) general; antonyms (adj) extraordinary, unusual, incredible, outstanding, peculiar, strange, special, distinguished, famous.

- рядок line; *synonyms* (*n*) cord, file, house, breed, course, family, lineage, field, ancestry, border, boundary, cable, crease, row, (*v*) order.
- рясний 1. abundant; synonyms (adj) copious, generous, lush, luxuriant, thick, plenty, affluent, ample, fertile, fruitful, liberal, plentiful, prolific, rich, substantial; antonyms (adj) scarce, sparse, meager, 2. fertile; synonyms (adj) productive, fat, fecund, abundant, exuberant, creative, bountiful, inventive, rank, original; antonyms (adj) infertile, sterile, 3. ample; synonyms (adj) big, broad, large, considerable, full, heavy, roomy, sizable, spacious, sufficient, voluminous, adequate, capacious, enough, expansive; antonyms (adj) inadequate, small, insufficient.
- рятування 1. salvation; synonyms (n) aid, redemption, delivery, rescue, justification, preservation, savior, (adi) conversion, adoption, beatification, regeneration; antonym (n) downfall, 2. rescue; synonyms (n) deliverance, release, salvage, relieve, liberation, salvation, (v) deliver, extricate, ransom, free, recover, redeem, save, help, liberate; antonyms (n) involvement, loss, (v) abandon.
- **PSTYBATU 1.** save; *synonyms* (v) deliver, economize, rescue, conserve, free, hoard, keep, maintain, preserve, liberate, protect, redeem, retain, defend, (prep) except; antonyms (v) spend, squander, waste, **2.** rescue; synonyms (n) deliverance, release, delivery, salvage, relieve, liberation, salvation, extrication, redemption, (v) extricate, ransom, recover, save, help, emancipate; antonyms (n) involvement, loss, (v) abandon.

## $\mathbf{C}$

- **ca**π garden; *synonyms* (n) field, bed, orchard, grounds, park, patch, plaisance, plot, garth, lawn, backyard, court, (v) farm, cultivate, (adi) commonplace.
- **саджати 1.** chair; *synonyms* (n) chairman, bench, chairperson, president, throne, couch, chairwoman, professorship, shop, (v) moderate, conduct, lead, **2.** plant; *synonyms* (n) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, (v) fix, place, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lay, bury, **3.** put; *synonyms* (v) position, impose, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, express, install, make, post, (n) deposit, invest.
- **садити** plant; *synonyms* (n) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, (v) fix, place, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lay, bury.
- **садівник** gardener; *synonyms* (*n*) horticulturist, nurseryman, farmer, husbandman.
- **садовити** sit; *synonyms* (*v*) model, pose, rest, ride, place, posture, put, seat, set, squat, meet, hold, convene, locate, mount; *antonyms* (*v*) stand, rise.
- **садок** garden; *synonyms* (*n*) field, bed, orchard, grounds, park, patch, plaisance, plot, garth, lawn, backyard, court, (*v*) farm, cultivate, (*adj*) commonplace.

- **caκ** sack; *synonyms* (n) pocket, pouch, sac, (v) pillage, bag, plunder, discharge, dismiss, despoil, fire, ransack, rob, rifle, can, loot; *antonym* (v) hire.
- **салат** salad; *synonyms* (n) sauce, miscellany.
- **caπo** fat; *synonyms* (*adj*) stout, corpulent, dense, thick, bulky, fatty, fertile, fleshy, gainful, greasy, great, (*n*) avoirdupois, blubber, cream, (*v*) fatten; *antonyms* (*adj*) thin, slim, skinny, slender.
- **canon 1.** cabin; *synonyms* (n) booth, hut, chamber, cot, lodge, room, shed, stall, apartment, **2.** salon; *synonyms* (n) hall, lounge, saloon, **3.** saloon; *synonyms* (n) bar, pub, barroom, pothouse, inn, sedan, taphouse, taproom, tavern, ginmill.
- **салун** saloon; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, pub, barroom, pothouse, inn, sedan, taphouse, taproom, tavern, ginmill.
- **сальдо** net; *synonyms* (*adj*) final, last, (*n*) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, (*v*) mesh, clear, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; *antonym* (*v*) gross.
- CAM 1. alone; *synonyms* (*adj*) forlorn, individual, lonely, lonesome, all, deserted, unequalled, (*adv*) only, solely, apart, entirely, exclusively, individually, separately, (*n*) isolated; *antonym* (*adv*) together, 2. self; *synonyms* (*n*) ego, person, being, someone, character, essence, individuality, personality, selfness, soul, spirit, (*adj*) same.
- came 1. exactly; synonyms (adv) precisely, correctly, right, truly, sharp, absolutely, just, accurately, certainly, closely, completely, directly, punctually, rightly, barely; antonyms (adv) approximately, inaccurately, (prep) about, 2. just; synonyms (adv) exactly, hardly, newly, simply, (adj) fair, correct, equitable, accurate, honest, impartial, fit, good, reasonable, righteous, upright; antonyms (adj) unfair, biased, wrong, 3. namely; synonyms (adv) videlicet, viz, scilicet, expressly, nominately, explicitly, i.e, specially, viz, wit.
- **самець 1.** male; *synonyms* (*adj*) masculine, manly, virile, manful, manlike, (*n*) chap, guy, man, (*obj*) he; *antonyms* (*adj*) feminine, (*n*) female, woman, **2.** mate; *synonyms* (*n*) match, companion, partner, associate, compeer, consort, fellow, friend, spouse, husband, colleague, (*v*) equal, copulate, couple, (*adj*) comrade.
- **самиця 1.** female; *synonyms* (*adj*) distaff, feminine, pistillate, (*n*) lady, woman, girl, (*obj*) she; *antonyms* (*adj*) masculine, (*n*) male, man, **2.** mate; *synonyms* (*n*) match, companion, partner, associate, compeer, consort, fellow, friend, spouse, husband, colleague, (*v*) equal, copulate, couple, (*adj*) comrade.
- **самітний 1.** alone; *synonyms* (*adj*) forlorn, individual, lonely, lonesome, all, deserted, unequalled, (*adv*) only, solely, apart, entirely, exclusively, individually, separately, (*n*) isolated; *antonym* (*adv*) together, **2**. close; *synonyms* (*adj*) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, (*v*) compact, stop, conclude, (*adv*) by, about, (*n*) end, finish, conclusion; *antonyms* (*adj*) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (*v*) open, start.
- **самка** female; *synonyms* (*adj*) distaff, feminine, pistillate, (*n*) lady, woman, girl, (*obj*) she; *antonyms* (*adj*) masculine, (*n*) male, man.
- **самовладання** restraint; *synonyms* (*n*) bridle, constraint, control, hindrance, limit, moderation,

- modesty, reserve, containment, curb, restriction, obstacle, (v) check, impediment, obstruction; *antonyms* (n) excess, abandon, decadence, incentive.
- CAMOBJIAJHHЙ absolute; synonyms (adj) downright, peremptory, total, unconditional, categorical, full, real, unqualified, utter, actual, arbitrary, authoritative, certain, complete, (n) positive; antonyms (adj) partial, qualified.
- самовпевнений 1. assured; synonyms (adj) certain, confident, secure, sure, assertive, definite, guaranteed, positive, convinced, reliable, safe, surefire; antonyms (adj) insecure, uncertain, 2. arrogant; synonyms (adj) haughty, imperious, presumptuous, proud, dogmatic, boastful, conceited, condescending, disdainful, domineering, egotistical, insolent, overbearing, supercilious, vain; antonyms (adj) modest, self-effacing, (syn) humble, 3. bold; synonyms (adj) adventurous, audacious, manly, resolute, arrogant, barefaced, courageous, daring, fearless, heroic, intrepid, spirited, stalwart, bluff, brave; antonyms (adj) cowardly, timid, 4. positive; synonyms (adj) absolute, affirmative, decisive, direct, explicit, favorable, incontrovertible, peremptory, plus, advantageous, arbitrary, assured, categorical, clear, (n) actual; antonyms (adj) negative, derogatory, unsure, pessimistic, sad.
- **CAMOBHEBHEHICT** Confidence; *synonyms* (*n*) assurance, trust, belief, certainty, certitude, faith, hope, conviction, credence, credit, expectation, intimacy, nerve, reliance, security; *antonyms* (*n*) insecurity, uncertainty, doubt, nervousness, anxiety, diffidence, distrust, fear, timidity.
- **самоврядний 1**. autonomous; *synonyms* (*adj*) independent, sovereign, autonomic, free, separate; *antonym* (*adj*) dependent, **2**. municipal; *synonyms* (*adj*) city, civic, civil, public, urban, national, metropolitan, town, administrative, community, domestic, executive; *antonym* (*adj*) rural.
- **самоврядування** autonomy; *synonyms* (*n*) independence, freedom, autocracy, liberty, sovereignty; *antonym* (*n*) dependence.
- **самосвідомість** consciousness; *synonyms* (n) awareness, feeling, sense, conscience, cognizance, mind, notion, knowledge, self; *antonym* (n) unconsciousness.
- **самостійний** independent; *synonyms* (*adj*) free, autonomous, separate, substantive, impartial, nonpartisan, sovereign, unallied, self-sufficient, detached, distinct, individual, (*n*) freelance, mugwump, (*adv*) apart; *antonyms* (*adj*) dependent, simultaneous.
- **camocriŭhicts** independence; *synonyms* (*n*) autonomy, freedom, liberty, independency, individuality, latitude, detachment, neutrality, sovereignty, inconsequence; *antonyms* (*n*) dependence, childhood.
- **camocriŭho** absolutely; *synonyms* (*adv*) surely, utterly, categorically, completely, dead, decidedly, definitely, entirely, exactly, fully, just, precisely, purely, (*int*) positively, certainly; *antonyms* (*adv*) partially, doubtfully, partly.
- camota privacy; synonyms (n) seclusion, secrecy, confidentiality, darkness, privateness, retreat, concealment, loneliness, shelter, retirement, solitude.
- **CAMOTHIЙ 1**. alone; *synonyms* (*adj*) forlorn, individual, lonely, lonesome, all, deserted, unequalled,

- (adv) only, solely, apart, entirely, exclusively, individually, separately, (n) isolated; antonym (adv) together, 2. single; synonyms (adj) celibate, one, odd, particular, distinct, lone, separate, simple, sole, solitary, exclusive, several, common, discrete, alone; antonyms (adj) married, double, multiple, 3. lonely; synonyms (adj) desolate, dreary, forsaken, desert, friendless, remote, secluded, bleak, sequestered, private; antonym (adj) sociable.
- **camothicth** 1. privacy; *synonyms* (*n*) seclusion, secrecy, confidentiality, darkness, privateness, retreat, concealment, loneliness, shelter, retirement, solitude, 2. loneliness; *synonyms* (*n*) desolation, aloneness, isolation, lonesomeness, solitariness, bleakness, forlornness.
- **сандвіч** sandwich (бутерброд); **synonym** (v) interlard. **санкціонувати** approve (схвалювати); **synonyms** (v) sanction, adopt, accept, acknowledge, allow, admit, agree, endorse, let, ratify, support, applaud, acquiesce, authorize, confirm; **antonyms** (v) reject, censure, condemn, disapprove, forbid, veto.
- **санкція** approval; *synonyms* (n) acceptance, applause, approbation, acclaim, agreement, recognition, admiration, acclamation, acknowledgment, acquiescence, appreciation, commendation, confirmation, consent, permission; *antonyms* (n) disapproval, rejection, condemnation, scorn, criticism.
- **capaŭ 1.** barn; *synonyms* (n) shed, store, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (adj) foul, unclean, **2**. shed; *synonyms* (v) cast, discard, drop, moult, scatter, exuviate, molt, dismiss, disgorge, emit, fling, (n) hut, shack, cabin, booth.
- **cataha** devil; *synonyms* (*n*) demon, fiend, ghost, daemon, deuce, monster, imp, rogue, (*v*) rag, torment, harass, bedevil, crucify, annoy, bother.
- **cate.nit** satellite; *synonyms* (n) follower, moon, planet, attendant, orbiter, disciple, secondary, cohort, hanger-on, colony, dependency, inferior, (adj) ancillary, collateral, concomitant.
- **свавільний** arbitrary; *synonyms* (*adj*) absolute, capricious, dictatorial, optional, erratic, random, peremptory, masterful, haphazard, autocratic, discretionary, dogmatic, domineering, freakish, imperious.
- **CBAPHTHC9** jar; *synonyms* (*n*) jangle, blow, crock, container, jog, shake, amphora, bottle, crash, (*v*) jolt, clash, creak, bump, collide, jounce.
- **сварка 1**. controversy; *synonyms* (*n*) contention, argumentation, argument, contest, altercation, conflict, debate, difference, dispute, squabble, row, competition, arguing, contestation, disagreement, **2**. jar; *synonyms* (*n*) jangle, blow, crock, container, jog, shake, amphora, bottle, crash, (*v*) jolt, clash, creak, bump, collide, jounce.
- **СВЕРДЕЛ** drill; *synonyms* (n) exercise, discipline, practice, auger, borer, rehearsal, gimlet, (v) bore, coach, educate, inculcate, instruct, perforate, pierce, tap.
- **свердлити** bore; *synonyms* (*v*) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (*n*) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (*adj*) pother; *antonyms* (*v*) interest, excite, fascinate.

- CBEPДЛІННЯ boring; synonyms (adj) dull, tedious, tiresome, annoying, arid, bland, dreary, monotonous, prosaic, tame, uninteresting, wearisome, vapid, drab, (n) drilling; antonyms (adj) exciting, fascinating, interesting, gripping, original, thrilling, varied.
- **СВЕРДЛО** drill; *synonyms* (n) exercise, discipline, practice, auger, borer, rehearsal, gimlet, (v) bore, coach, educate, inculcate, instruct, perforate, pierce, tap.
- **свердловина** bore; *synonyms* (*v*) dig, bother, tire, annoy, drill, perforate, pierce, plague, tap, (*n*) caliber, diameter, nuisance, well, annoyance, (*adj*) pother; *antonyms* (*v*) interest, excite, fascinate.
- **cBetp** sweater; synonym (n) perspirer.
- **свинець** lead; *synonyms* (v) head, guide, conduct, contribute, direct, chair, conduce, control, go, govern, bring, convey, give, (n) clue, advantage; *antonym* (v) follow
- **свинина** pork; *synonyms* (*n*) porc, beef, chicken, ham, lamb, mutton, veal, venison.
- **свиня** pig; *synonyms* (*n*) hog, boar, bull, cop, copper, fuzz, glutton, grunter, (*v*) farrow, devour, gulp, guttle.
- CBHCT Whistle; synonyms (n) whistling, pennywhistle, (v) pipe, sing, twitter, hiss, cry, warble, cheep, tweet, chirp, wheeze
- **CBUCTATU** Whistle; *synonyms* (n) whistling, pennywhistle, (v) pipe, sing, twitter, hiss, cry, warble, cheep, tweet, chirp, wheeze.
- **CBUCTITH 1.** Whistle; *synonyms* (*n*) whistling, pennywhistle, (*v*) pipe, sing, twitter, hiss, cry, warble, cheep, tweet, chirp, wheeze, **2.** pipe; *synonyms* (*n*) tube, conduit, channel, duct, flue, hose, passage, pipage, drain, (*v*) peep, screech, shriek, squeak, creak, shrill.
- **CBHCTOK** whistle; *synonyms* (n) whistling, pennywhistle, (ν) pipe, sing, twitter, hiss, cry, warble, cheep, tweet, chirp, wheeze.
- **cBigok** witness; *synonyms* (*n*) spectator, testimony, bystander, eyewitness, onlooker, evidence, observer, testifier, beholder, proof, (*v*) attest, observe, notice, see, view; *antonym* (*n*) participant.
- **свідомий** conscious; *synonyms* (*adj*) aware, alive, calculated, cognizant, deliberate, mindful, premeditated, intended, discerning, self-conscious, intentional, knowing, knowledgeable, known, purposeful; *antonyms* (*adj*) unconscious, unaware, ignorant.
- **свідомість** 1. consciousness; *synonyms* (*n*) awareness, feeling, sense, conscience, cognizance, mind, notion, knowledge, self; *antonym* (*n*) unconsciousness, 2. conscience; *synonyms* (*n*) shame, scruple, principles, bosom, compunction, duty, ethics, inwit, obligation, principle, qualm, regret, (*adj*) abandoned, (*v*) absolve, acquit.
- свідомо 1. deliberately; synonyms (adv) advisedly, consciously, purposely, designedly, intentionally, knowingly, leisurely, carefully, circumspectly, slowly; antonyms (adv) unintentionally, accidentally, involuntarily, arbitrarily, automatically, furtively, 2. consciously; synonyms (adv) deliberately, calculatingly, intelligently.
- **свідоцтво** certificate; *synonyms* (n) bond, diploma, certification, credential, credentials, document, license,

- testimonial, warrant, authentication, deed, docket, bill, (v) certify, sanction.
- **свідчення 1.** witness; *synonyms* (*n*) spectator, testimony, bystander, eyewitness, onlooker, evidence, observer, testifier, beholder, proof, (*v*) attest, observe, notice, see, view; *antonym* (*n*) participant, **2.** evidence; *synonyms* (*n*) confirmation, mark, data, argument, attestation, demonstration, sign, clue, deposition, (*v*) display, demonstrate, certify, manifest, denote, establish.
- свідчити 1. witness; synonyms (n) spectator, testimony, bystander, eyewitness, onlooker, evidence, observer, testifier, beholder, proof, (v) attest, observe, notice, see, view; antonym (n) participant, 2. tell; synonyms (v) relate, declare, divulge, express, impart, recount, reveal, explain, announce, command, communicate, describe, distinguish, (n) disclose, count; antonym (v) request, 3. reveal; synonyms (v) expose, betray, convey, detect, discover, display, exhibit, present, indicate, show, uncover, proclaim, find, develop, instruct; antonyms (v) conceal, hide, cover.
- свіжий 1. fresh; synonyms (adj) bracing, brisk, clean, novel, bright, original, recent, airy, bold, alive, chilly, cool, forward, green, (adv) new; antonyms (adj) old, stale, decayed, exhausted, hot, humid, muggy, musty, off, oppressive, rotten, tired, worn, dry, sweltering, 2. new; synonyms (adj) modern, additional, inexperienced, innovative, raw, strange, unaccustomed, unprecedented, young, contemporary, current, different, (adv) fresh, lately, freshly; antonyms (adj) familiar, outgoing, second-hand, traditional, used, less, old-fashioned, (adv) past.
- cBiжo freshly; synonyms (adv) newly, recently, fresh, new, anew, lately.
- свій оwn; synonyms (v) acknowledge, admit, have, concede, allow, grant, hold, possess, confess, get, accept, avow, enjoy, (adj) individual, proper.
- **свійський** domestic; *synonyms* (*adj*) home, tame, civil, familiar, household, internal, native, domesticated, family, indigenous, indoor, inland, (*n*) homely, maid, servant; *antonyms* (*adj*) foreign, wild, external.
- cBit 1. world; synonyms (n) cosmos, nature, universe, creation, public, sphere, society, realm, globe, humanity, life, macrocosm, mankind, people, (adj) global, 2. kingdom; synonyms (n) country, domain, dominion, empire, state, nation, territory, area, department, land, monarchy, reign.
- **світання** daylight; *synonyms* (n) day, dawn, daybreak, light, morning, sunrise, clearance, daytime, sunup; *antonyms* (n) night, nighttime.
- **світанок 1.** dawn; *synonyms* (*n*) beginning, commencement, aurora, cockcrow, morning, onset, origin, prime, start, sunrise, birth, (*v*) break, begin, appear, (*adj*) daybreak; *antonyms* (*n*) dusk, sunset, twilight, (*v*) end, finish, **2.** daylight; *synonyms* (*n*) day, dawn, light, clearance, daytime, sunup; *antonyms* (*n*) night, nighttime.
- **світильник** lamp (лампа); *synonyms* (n) light, look, beacon, view, glance, alfalfa, glimpse, lucern, (v) behold, regard, perceive, gape, gaze, inspect, observe.
- **світлий 1**. clear; *synonyms* (*adj*) clean, certain, open, apparent, distinct, empty, (*v*) bright, acquit, absolute,

- free, net, absolve, clarify, definite, discharge; antonyms (adj) cloudy, opaque, unclear, dark, fuzzy, hazy, incomprehensible, obscure, uncertain, vague, ambiguous, blurry, confused, confusing, (v) convict, 2. bright; synonyms (adj) clear, alive, apt, intelligent, vivid, beaming, brainy, brilliant, light, luminous, lustrous, shining, shiny, smart, sunny; antonyms (adj) dull, dim, dreary, gloomy, stupid, unintelligent, overcast, shadowy, leaden, slow, thick, 3. light; synonyms (adj) fair, facile, easy, faint, flimsy, (n) flame, brightness, daylight, (v) fire, kindle, inflame, glow, ignite, dismount, illuminate; antonyms (adj) fattening, nauseating, (n) darkness, gloom, shade, night, (v) extinguish, darken, (alt sp) heavy.
- світло light; synonyms (adj) fair, clear, facile, easy, faint, flimsy, (n) flame, brightness, daylight, (v) fire, kindle, inflame, glow, ignite, dismount; antonyms (adj) fattening, nauseating, (n) dark, darkness, gloom, shade, night, (v) extinguish, darken, (alt sp) heavy.
- **світлотінь** lighting; *synonyms* (n) illumination, light, firing, ignition, kindling, inflammation, brightness, discharge, dismissal, dismission, fire, igniter, ignitor, installation, liberation.
- **світовий 1.** worldwide; *synonyms* (*adj*) global, ecumenical, general, cosmopolitan, common, universal, international, world, comprehensive, intercontinental, oecumenical, planetary; *antonym* (*adj*) local, **2.** global; *synonyms* (*adj*) overall, worldwide, earthly, total, globose, globular, inclusive, orbicular, spheric, spherical, terrestrial, sweeping; *antonym* (*adj*) national.
- **світогля**д ideology; *synonyms* (*n*) philosophy, belief, theory, opinion, approach, attitude, creed, method, partisanship, policy, precept, principle, rule, system, values.
- cBiTou torch; synonyms (n) flashlight, brand, light, blowlamp, blowtorch, incendiary, teade, triggerman, (v) burn.
- **світський 1**. secular; *synonyms* (*adj*) profane, lay, worldly, earthly, laic, temporal, terrestrial, (*n*) layman, (*v*) centennial; *antonyms* (*adj*) holy, religious, spiritual, **2**. lay; *synonyms* (*v*) place, put, fix, set, deposit, install, lie, rest, invest, bear, allay, arrange, (*adj*) secular, (*n*) ballad, pitch.
- **свічення** lighting; *synonyms* (n) illumination, light, firing, ignition, kindling, inflammation, brightness, discharge, dismissal, dismission, fire, igniter, ignitor, installation, liberation.
- **свічка** candle; *synonyms* (n) candela, light, taper, cadmium, luminary, wick, (v) check, investigate, scrutinize.
- **свічник** stick; *synonyms* (n) bar, club, (v) adhere, stab, attach, cling, fix, paste, staff, cohere, affix, bind, cleave, fasten, hold.
- **свобода 1.** liberty; *synonyms* (*n*) freedom, immunity, license, independence, leave, autonomy, emancipation, latitude, exemption, permission, privilege, release, scope, familiarity, (*adj*) franchise, **2.** freedom; *synonyms* (*n*) deliverance, discharge, escape, ease, liberty, relief, right, enfranchisement, sovereignty, leeway, liberation, riddance, (*adj*) frankness; *antonyms*

- (n) imprisonment, restriction, captivity, dependence, restraint, suppression.
- **СВОЄРІДНИЙ** original; *synonyms* (*adj*) first, authentic, native, new, primary, primitive, indigenous, aboriginal, creative, early, fresh, imaginative, inventive, (*n*) archetype, model; *antonyms* (*adj*) commonplace, banal, copied, corny, derivative, hackneyed, well-worn, conventional, resulting, unimaginative, (*n*) copy, counterfeit, fake, imitation, replica.
- Своєчасний pat; synonyms (n) tap, knock, clap, touch, beat, rap, slap, smack, stroke, hit, fondle, apposite, apt, (y) caress, dab.
- **Своєчасно** раt; *synonyms* (*n*) tap, knock, clap, touch, beat, rap, slap, smack, stroke, hit, fondle, apposite, apt, (*y*) caress dab.
- **СВЯТИЙ 1**. saint; *synonyms* (n) angel, apostle, apotheosis, disciple, evangelist, ideal, nonesuch, nonpareil, nonsuch, paragon, (v) canonize, enshrine, **2**. sacred; *synonyms* (adj) hallowed, holy, consecrated, dedicated, divine, religious, pious, blessed, inviolable, spiritual, consecrate, celestial, devoted, (v) solemn, majestic; *antonyms* (adj) secular, profane, **3**. holy; *synonyms* (adj) devout, godly, heavenly, devotional, pure, pietistic, sanctified, sainted, reverent, sacred, saintly, angelic, righteous, (n) sanctum.
- **святилище** sanctuary; *synonyms* (*n*) refuge, asylum, retreat, haven, shrine, safety, reservation, chancel, protection, shelter, church, resort, cover, harbor, port.
- **СВЯТИНЯ** holy; *synonyms* (*adj*) devout, divine, godly, heavenly, religious, blessed, hallowed, spiritual, devotional, celestial, pious, pure, pietistic, sanctified, sainted; *antonym* (*adj*) secular.
- **святковий** holiday; *synonyms* (*n*) feast, festival, sabbath, break, leisure, recess, rest, stay, (*v*) vacation, fete. (*adi*) festive.
- **СВЯТКУВАННЯ** celebration; *synonyms* (*n*) gala, anniversary, commemoration, fair, feast, festival, festivity, holiday, merrymaking, party, solemnization, praise, rite, ceremony, (*adj*) dedication; *antonym* (*n*) lament
- **СВЯТКУВАТИ** celebrate; *synonyms* (*v*) commemorate, extol, keep, praise, acclaim, fete, honor, laud, solemnize, applaud, honour, distinguish, eulogize, exult, glorify; *antonym* (*v*) ignore.
- **CBSTO 1.** holiday; *synonyms* (*n*) feast, festival, sabbath, break, leisure, recess, rest, stay, (*v*) vacation, fete, (*adj*) festive, **2.** feast; *synonyms* (*n*) banquet, dinner, entertainment, binge, carousal, celebration, meal, spread, (*v*) junket, eat, feed, treat, entertain, dine, gratify; *antonym* (*v*) fast, **3.** festival; *synonyms* (*n*) carnival, fair, festivity, holiday, fête, fiesta, gala, jamboree, party, anniversary, (*adj*) ball.
- **священик 1.** priest; *synonyms* (*n*) clergyman, minister, ecclesiastic, churchman, cleric, parson, pastor, presbyter, chaplain, monk, (*adj*) divine, **2.** minister; *synonyms* (*n*) envoy, priest, deputy, ambassador, curate, agent, messenger, delegate, official, preacher, rector, shepherd, (*v*) supply, administer, provide, **3.** pope; *synonyms* (*n*) pontiff, cardinal, fish, (*adj*) church, gospel, scripture.
- **священний 1**. holy; *synonyms* (*adj*) devout, divine, godly, heavenly, religious, blessed, hallowed, spiritual, devotional, celestial, pious, pure, pietistic, sanctified,

- sainted; *antonym* (*adj*) secular, **2**. sacred; *synonyms* (*adj*) holy, consecrated, dedicated, inviolable, consecrate, devoted, sacrosanct, saintly, sublime, venerable, biblical, (*v*) solemn, majestic, imposing; *antonym* (*adj*) profane.
- **ceahc** session; *synonyms* (n) meeting, seance, sitting, conference, bout, consultation, convention, class, period, stretch, discussion.
- **cerment 1.** segment; *synonyms* (*n*) division, paragraph, bit, piece, portion, share, slice, proportion, length, cut, sector, (*v*) section, part, divide, partition, **2.** section; *synonyms* (*n*) compartment, percentage, class, branch, chapter, clause, department, episode, region, subdivision, quarter, area, arm, article, (*v*) segment.
- **ce30H** Season; *synonyms* (*n*) opportunity, space, spell, (*prep*) period, (*v*) flavor, mature, inure, salt, mellow, flavour, moderate, pickle, ripen, (*adj*) harden, habituate.
- сезонний seasonal; synonyms (adj) cyclic, periodic, intermittent, recurrent, seasonable, continuing, drifting, itinerant, migrant, migratory, nomadic, odd, perennial, recurring, regular.
- ceňφ safe; synonyms (adj) secure, reliable, cautious, dependable, good, harmless, innocuous, sound, correct, innocent, inoffensive, certain, stable, (n) closet, coffer; antonyms (adj) dangerous, unsafe, hurt, risky, unprotected, vulnerable, harmful, insecure, reckless.
- **cekpet** secret; *synonyms* (*adj*) concealed, covert, hidden, mysterious, confidential, furtive, obscure, occult, secrecy, clandestine, (*n*) privacy, arcanum, (*v*) private, secluded, close; *antonyms* (*adj*) open, (*n*) known, public.
- **ceκperap 1**. secretary; *synonyms* (n) clerk, escritoire, minister, desk, secretaire, bailiff, factor, repository, (ν) amanuensis, scribe, writer, scrivener, **2**. clerk; *synonyms* (n) transcriber, accountant, employee, recorder, salesclerk, cashier, (ν) secretary.
- секретний 1. secret; synonyms (adj) concealed, covert, hidden, mysterious, confidential, furtive, obscure, occult, secrecy, clandestine, (n) privacy, arcanum, (v) private, secluded, close; antonyms (adj) open, (n) known, public, 2. private; synonyms (adj) personal, individual, secret, inner, esoteric, exclusive, intimate, particular, domestic, interior, lonely, own, privy, retired, special; antonyms (adj) communal, community, nationalized, official, state-owned, civic, shared, state, 3. confidential; synonyms (adj) classified, privileged, thick, closet, bosom, familiar, inward, undercover.
- **секретність 1.** privacy; *synonyms* (n) seclusion, secrecy, confidentiality, darkness, privateness, retreat, concealment, loneliness, shelter, retirement, solitude, **2**. secrecy; *synonyms* (n) privacy, silence, mystery, secretiveness, mum, furtiveness, closeness, stealth, covertness, dark, muteness; *antonym* (n) openness.
- **секреція** secretion; *synonyms* (n) exudation, discharge, emission, exhalation, extrusion, juice, concealment, liquid, emanation, discrimination, flow, production, release, secernment, pus.
- CEKC SEX (CTATЬ); synonyms (n) gender, intercourse, copulation, coitus, sexuality, mating, (v) arouse, excite, (adj) sexual.
- **сексуальний 1**. sexual; *synonyms* (*adj*) sensual, sexy, erotic, intimate, amphigonic, cozy, familiar, gross, informal, inner, internal, knowledgeable, animal,

- animalistic, bestial, **2**. sexy; *synonyms* (*adj*) aphrodisiac, aphrodisiacal, sultry, adorable, desirable, irresistible, jazzy, passionate, pornographic, provocative, risqué, torrid, adult, bedroom, blue.
- **CEKTOP** Sector; *synonyms* (*n*) department, area, branch, district, division, section, segment, region, arm, part, quadrant, domain, field, piece, quarter.
- **секунда** second; *synonyms* (n) instant, moment, flash, jiffy, minute, sec, (v) back, endorse, support, encourage, forward, help, (adj) latter, further, (pron) additional; *antonym* (adj) first.
- **ceκtifs** section; *synonyms* (n) division, part, portion, compartment, percentage, piece, class, branch, chapter, clause, department, episode, partition, region, (ν) segment.
- **селективний** selective; *synonyms* (*adj*) select, particular, discriminating, elective, exclusive, choosy, finicky, discerning, judicious, persnickety, fastidious, picky, eelectic, fussy, astute.
- **селище** settlement; *synonyms* (*n*) decision, accommodation, colony, hamlet, payment, arrangement, conclusion, resolution, determination, contract, adjustment, agreement, colonization, establishment, liquidation.
- **ce.10** 1. village; *synonyms* (n) hamlet, city, community, neighborhood, settlement, kraal, (adv) town, **2**. country; *synonyms* (n) state, nation, home, land, area, commonwealth, kingdom, place, realm, region, soil, territory, (adj) rural, rustic, public; *antonym* (adj) urban.
- **СЕЛЯНИН** peasant; *synonyms* (n) boor, farmer, churl, bucolic, countryman, clown, hind, provincial, rustic, barbarian.
- **CEMBETTS** peasantry; *synonyms* (*n*) coarseness, rusticity. **CEMECTP** term; *synonyms* (*n*) name, expression, period, style, title, boundary, limit, spell, stipulation, time, duration, phrase, (*v*) call, designate, entitle.
- **cemihap** seminar; *synonyms* (n) conference, class, tutorial, meeting, workshop, course, gymnasium, palaestra, talk.
- **cenat** senate; *synonyms* (n) council, legislature, parliament, congress, assembly, senatus, storthing, witenagemote, authority, committee, house.
- сендвіч sandwich (бутерброд); synonym (v) interlard.
- **cenc** sense; *synonyms* (*n*) intelligence, perception, meaning, sensation, logic, awareness, experience, feeling, idea, impression, notion, (*v*) feel, intellect, mind, perceive; *antonyms* (*n*) garbage, ludicrousness, nonsense, stupidity, foolishness, gibberish.
- **cencauis** sensation; *synonyms* (n) impression, emotion, feel, sense, perception, sensibility, sensitivity, thrill, wonder, agitation, stunner, awareness, idea, (v) feeling, affection; *antonym* (n) numbness.
- **CEHTEHUI9** maxim; *synonyms* (n) axiom, aphorism, adage, apothegm, byword, rule, motto, principle, proverb, saw, saying, canon, law, moral, dictum.
- **сентиментальний** sentimental; *synonyms* (*adj*) emotional, maudlin, mushy, romantic, tender, mawkish, schmaltzy, soft, sappy, bathetic, loving, mincing, nostalgic, schmalzy, slushy.
- **сентиментальність** sentiment; *synonyms* (n) idea, emotion, feeling, mind, notion, judgement, judgment,

- opinion, persuasion, sense, attitude, impression, affection, belief, position.
- **сепаратний** separate; *synonyms* (*adj*) detached, (*v*) detach, divorce, part, insulate, scatter, cut, dissociate, disconnect, discrete, discriminate, disjoin, disperse, distinguish, divide; *antonyms* (*adj*) connected, joined, simultaneous, (*v*) unite, merge, mix, combine, fuse, join, link associate.
- cep sir; synonyms (n) esquire, gentleman, master, man, don, signior, buck, dominus, effendi, magister, signore.
- cepBaHT cupboard; synonyms (n) closet, cabinet, buffet, commode, compartment, cranny, cub, nook, pigeonhole, bin, breakfront, bunker, cellaret, clothespress, cubicle.
- **cepsep** server; *synonyms* (*n*) host, waiter, attendant, emcee, horde, innkeeper, legion.
- **cepBi3** service; *synonyms* (*n*) help, aid, assistance, avail, employment, ministration, ceremony, business, occupation, office, (*v*) overhaul, serve, refit, assist, attendance.
- CEPДЕЧНИЙ kind; synonyms (n) form, helpful, sort, benign, brand, breed, class, gentle, type, variety, (adj) friendly, generous, good, humane, affectionate; antonyms (adj) unkind, callous, cruel, hardhearted, mean, merciless, nasty, spiteful, uncaring, upsetting, disagreeable, unfeeling.
- **сердечник** соге; *synonyms* (n) bosom, center, essence, gist, heart, kernel, marrow, quintessence, stone, mind, base, burden, centre, crux, focus; *antonym* (adi) minor.
- **сердечність** warmth; *synonyms* (*n*) glow, heat, temperature, fervor, geniality, passion, warmness, affection, tenderness, fire, fondness, friendliness, hotness, sympathy, (*adj*) verve; *antonyms* (*n*) aloofness, chill, chilliness, coldness, coolness, unfriendliness.
- **сердити** anger; *synonyms* (*n*) displeasure, fury, rage, indignation, resentment, annoyance, (*v*) enrage, incense, aggravate, displease, exasperate, irritate, offend, wrath, fume; *antonyms* (*n*) pleasure, composure, (*v*) please, placate, pacify, calm.
- **сердитий** angry; *synonyms* (*adj*) furious, incensed, provoked, fierce, irate, raging, vehement, maddened, fuming, outraged, piqued, splenetic, angered, annoyed, boiling; *antonyms* (*adj*) calm, pleased, gentle.
- **сердито** angrily; *synonyms* (*adv*) fiercely, passionately, furiously, acrimoniously, angerly, ardently, brutally, cholericly, coldly, coolly, cynically, ferociously, fervently, frigidly, frostily; *antonym* (*adv*) mildly.
- **середина 1.** mean; *synonyms* (*v*) intend, design, imply, denote, involve, (*adj*) middle, base, common, hateful, ignoble, medium, miserly, (*n*) average, contemptible, low; *antonyms* (*adj*) generous, kind, **2.** middle; *synonyms* (*adj*) intermediate, central, halfway, median, mediate, mid, inner, inside, mesial, (*n*) heart, hub, mean, center, core, centre; *antonyms* (*adj*) extreme, outer, (*n*) edge, outside, **3.** midst; *synonyms* (*n*) thick, interior, middest, deep, depths, nucleus, (*prep*) during.
- **серединний** median; *synonyms* (*adj*) middle, medial, mesial, central, intermediate, medium, mid, normal, (*n*) mean, average, norm.
- **середній 1**. mean; *synonyms* (*v*) intend, design, imply, denote, involve, (*adj*) middle, base, common, hateful, ignoble, medium, miserly, (*n*) average, contemptible,

- low; antonyms (adj) generous, kind, 2. middle; synonyms (adj) intermediate, central, halfway, median, mediate, mid, inner, inside, mesial, (n) heart, hub, mean, center, core, centre; antonyms (adj) extreme, outer, (n) edge, outside, 3. average; synonyms (adi) fair, middling, normal, ordinary, mediocre, moderate, tolerable, usual, commonplace, customary, everyday, medial, plain, (n) norm, midpoint; antonyms (adj) exceptional, extraordinary, abnormal, unusual, (v) maximum, minimum, 4. medium; synonyms (n) atmosphere, go-between, instrument, means, vehicle, agency, channel, environment, mediocrity, spiritualist, clairvoyant, instrumentality, mediator, midst, mediation, 5. normal; synonyms (adj) regular, conventional, general, habitual, natural, typical, just, formal, perpendicular, right, routine, sane, true, legitimate, (v) healthy; antonyms (adj) creepy, eccentric, irregular, odd, strange, supernatural, unconventional, weird, irrational, phenomenal, **6**. moderate; *synonyms* (*adj*) temperate, abstemious, mild, easy, (v) calm, mitigate, allay, curb, diminish, lessen, ease, cool, abate, assuage, (adv) check; antonyms (adj) immoderate, radical, (v) increase, intensify, 7. neutral; synonyms (adj) disinterested, impartial, indifferent, dispassionate, impersonal, noncommittal, colorless, detached, inert, objective, unbiased, apathetic, independent, nonpartisan, (n) neuter; antonyms (adj) biased, aromatic, colorful.
- **середньовічний** medieval; *synonyms* (*adj*) mediaeval, archaic, chivalric, classic, knightly, chivalrous, gallant, antediluvian, feudal, old, primitive, unenlightened.
- **середовище 1**. environment; *synonyms* (*n*) circumstance, background, habitat, atmosphere, context, setting, surroundings, vicinity, ecology, element, circumstances, environs, medium, scene, home, **2**. surroundings; *synonyms* (*n*) environment, neighborhood, milieu, ambiance, situation, surround, ambience, locale.
- **cepжaht** sergeant; *synonyms* (n) serjeant, detective, disciplinarian, officer.
- **cepia** serial; **synonyms** (adj) sequential, consecutive, recurrent, sequent, successive, regular, nonparallel, (n) periodical, series.
- **CEPIÏ** series; *synonyms* (n) chain, rank, collection, cycle, line, round, run, sequence, serial, set, string, succession, (v) course, order, (adj) progression.
- **серійний** serial; *synonyms* (*adj*) sequential, consecutive, recurrent, sequent, successive, regular, nonparallel, (*n*) periodical, series.
- cepis 1. series; synonyms (n) chain, rank, collection, cycle, line, round, run, sequence, serial, set, string, succession, (v) course, order, (adj) progression, 2. range; synonyms (n) area, array, compass, reach, scope, domain, distance, (v) arrange, roam, group, ramble, wander, align, gad, classify.
- **серйозний** serious; *synonyms* (*adj*) grave, heavy, sedate, austere, great, hard, considerable, critical, dangerous, earnest, grievous, sad, sober, (*v*) important, momentous; *antonyms* (*adj*) frivolous, lighthearted, cheerful, flippant, humorous, mild, minor, playful, slight.
- **серйозність 1**. seriousness; *synonyms* (n) gravity, earnest, earnestness, graveness, importance, solemnity,

- staidness, sincerity, consequence, austerity, severity, significance, soberness, sobriety, distressfulness; *antonyms* (*n*) flippancy, insignificance, lightheartedness, frivolity, giddiness, jollity, 2. gravity; *synonyms* (*n*) gravitation, seriousness, weight, sedateness, moment, gloominess, somberness, (*v*) poise.
- **серйозно 1.** deeply; *synonyms* (adv) deep, profoundly, very, highly, thickly, badly, completely, fast, greatly, intensely, strongly, thoroughly, sincerely; *antonym* (adv) superficially, **2**. seriously; *synonyms* (adv) gravely, earnestly, severely, deeply, soberly, hard, critically, desperately, momentously, solemnly, absolutely, decidedly, poorly, purely, sadly; *antonyms* (adv) cheerfully, frivolously, jokingly, playfully, goodhumoredly, slightly, teasingly.
- **сертифікат** certificate; *synonyms* (*n*) bond, diploma, certification, credential, credentials, document, license, testimonial, warrant, authentication, deed, docket, bill, (*y*) certify, sanction.
- **cepue** heart; *synonyms* (n) core, center, spirit, affection, basis, bosom, breast, courage, crux, essence, hub, kernel, marrow, middle, (adi) gist; *antonym* (n) edge.
- **серцевина** heart (серце); *synonyms* (*n*) core, center, spirit, affection, basis, bosom, breast, courage, crux, essence, hub, kernel, marrow, middle, (*adj*) gist; *antonym* (*n*) edge.
- **cecis** session; *synonyms* (n) meeting, seance, sitting, conference, bout, consultation, convention, class, period, stretch, discussion.
- **cectpa** sister; *synonyms* (*n*) nun, nurse, brother, mate, twin, baby, counterpart, double, match, member, pair, pendant, sis.
- **ce4a** urine; *synonyms* (n) piss, pee, water, piddle, emiction, lanterloo, netting, peeing, pissing, weewee.
- CUBİTU 1. grey; synonyms (adj) dim, dull, greyish, hoar, hoary, leaden, grayish, (n) grayness, greyness, (v) gray, 2. gray; synonyms (adj) bleak, gloomy, grizzled, old, overcast, pale, dismal, murky, white, cheerless, cloudy, foggy, ashen, (n) grizzle, (v) grey; antonym (adj) bright.
- **curapera** cigarette; *synonyms* (*n*) cigaret, fag, butt, arse, ass, backside, behind, bottom, bum, buns, buttocks, can, scroll, derriere, (*adj*) cigar.
- **CHIHAJ 1.** signal; synonyms (n) sign, gesture, indication, presage, flag, alarm, mark, motion, (v) omen, indicate, wave, alert, betoken, (adj) conspicuous, memorable, **2**. sounding; synonyms (adj) audible, looking, hollow, sonant, voiceful, intonated, soniferous, tonic, (n) investigation, depth, test.
- **сигналізувати** signal; *synonyms* (*n*) sign, gesture, indication, presage, flag, alarm, mark, motion, (*v*) omen, indicate, wave, alert, betoken, (*adj*) conspicuous, memorable.
- **сидіння 1**. seat; *synonyms* (*n*) place, bench, base, backside, behind, bottom, buttocks, chair, position, post, posterior, (*v*) locate, put, contain, hold, **2**. bottom; *synonyms* (*n*) basis, bed, foot, footing, back, arse, ass, bum, butt, craft, floor, foundation, rear, root, (*v*) ground; *antonyms* (*n*) top, pinnacle, (*adj*) highest, **3**. sitting; *synonyms* (*v*) incubation, batching, gestation, (*n*) session, seat, meeting, seance, posing, (*adj*) seated, inactive.

- **CULTIVE** sit; *synonyms* (v) model, pose, rest, ride, place, posture, put, seat, set, squat, meet, hold, convene, locate, mount; *antonyms* (v) stand, rise.
- **СИДЯЧИЙ** sitting; *synonyms* (v) incubation, batching, gestation, (n) session, seat, meeting, seance, posing, (adj) seated, inactive.
- **сила 1**. force; *synonyms* (n) energy, strength, agency, effect, enforce, impetus, (v) drive, coerce, pressure, squeeze, thrust, compel, cram, impel, (adj) constrain; antonyms (n) weakness, persuasion, 2. strength; synonyms (n) force, power, firmness, intensity, vigor, endurance, potency, stability, health, soundness, amount, brawn, forcefulness, (v) might, capacity; antonyms (n) frailty, flaw, shortcoming, 3. power; synonyms (n) ability, authority, control, domination, effectiveness, aptitude, capability, command, gift, jurisdiction, mightiness, (v) influence, dominion, faculty, efficacy; antonyms (n) powerlessness, helplessness, 4. energy; synonyms (n) animation, dash, life, spirit, determination, effort, vitality, action, activity, dynamism, go, push, stamina, verve, vim; antonyms (n) lethargy, apathy, exhaustion, tiredness, idleness, sluggishness, 5. agency; synonyms (n) bureau, office, commission, expedient, factor, instrument, means, organ, way, efficiency, board, department, group, (v) act, deed,  $\mathbf{6}$ . might; synonyms (v) can, could, main, (n) puissance, vehemence, muscle, nerve, sway, violence, inclemency.
- **силування** enforcement; *synonyms* (*n*) coercion, execution, compulsion, constraint, duress, force, performance, coaction, press, effect, administration, overflow, fulfilling, impulsion, insistence.
- **сильний 1**. strong; *synonyms* (adj) intense, powerful, able, deep, firm, stable, steady, cogent, durable, forcible, good, hard, influential, lusty, potent; antonyms (adj) weak, bland, delicate, faint, feeble, frail, mild, pale, slight, unconvincing, cowardly, diluted, dull, exhausted, flimsy, 2. violent; synonyms (adj) fierce, rough, tempestuous, raging, severe, turbulent, vehement, sharp, passionate, savage, stormy, strong, wild, (n) furious, boisterous; antonyms (adj) gentle, peaceful, calm, nonviolent, 3. vigorous; synonyms (adj) robust, energetic, hardy, lively, strenuous, active, athletic, hearty, mighty, healthy, smart, brawny, muscular, (n) brave, (v) brisk; antonyms (adj) lethargic, unenergetic, 4. acute; synonyms (adj) incisive, keen, penetrating, critical, piercing, shrewd, shrill, acrid, acuate, discerning, discriminating, grave, intelligent, penetrative, (v) high; antonym (adj) obtuse, 5. sharp; synonyms (adi) acute, bitter, acid, harsh, pointed, pungent, quick, alert, caustic, cutting, piquant, prompt, sarcastic, (v) biting, clever; antonyms (adj) blunt, rounded, sweet, blurred, naive, round, smooth, 6. nervous; synonyms (adj) anxious, excitable, tense, afraid, apprehensive, fearful, shy, uneasy, edgy, fidgety, neurotic, restless, timid, (adv) excited, agitated; antonym (adi) relaxed, 7, powerful: synonyms (adi) effective. vigorous, full, big, dominant, formidable, hefty, important, stiff, sturdy, valid, convincing, husky, fit, dynamic; *antonym* (adj) powerless, **8**. intense; synonyms (adj) bright, ardent, brilliant, fervent, burning, extreme, fiery, heated, rich, impassioned, hot, heartfelt,

- excruciating, forceful, (v) vivid; antonym (adj) imperceptible, 9. keen; synonyms (adj) eager, enthusiastic, exquisite, astute, desirous, hungry, impatient, perceptive, fine, earnest, dry, (v) fresh, avid, howl, moan; antonyms (adj) apathetic, indifferent, unenthusiastic, 10. robust; synonyms (adj) healthful, stout, masculine, stalwart, strapping, tough, hale, large, robustious, able-bodied, bulky, manly, (n) enduring, rugged, iron; antonym (adj) fragile, 11. smart; synonyms (adj) crafty, dapper, sly, chic, jaunty, natty, neat, saucy, fashionable, ready, artful, cunning, (v) ache, hurt, (n) pain; antonyms (adj) scruffy, stupid, dim, shabby, unkempt, slow.
- **СИЛЬНО 1.** Strongly; *synonyms* (adv) powerfully, firmly, hard, deeply, energetically, fiercely, forcefully, forcibly, intensely, mightily, severely, sturdily, tightly, vehemently, vigorously; *antonyms* (adv) weakly, mildly, dimly, faintly, feebly, **2.** violently; *synonyms* (adv) passionately, strongly, wildly, (adj) madly, ardently, hotly; *antonyms* (adv) calmly, gently, **3.** high (Високий); *synonyms* (adj) eminent, elevated, great, expensive, distinguished, exalted, lofty, tall, heavy, arrogant, costly, dear, (v) bad, fusty, rancid; *antonyms* (adj) deep, short, sober, (n) low, **4.** much; *synonyms* (adv) greatly, frequently, almost, awfully, considerably, far, most, often, pretty, highly, (n) lot, heap, (adj) considerable, practically, muckle; *antonym* (adv) slightly.
- **сильнодіючий 1.** drastic; *synonyms* (*adj*) severe, desperate, extreme, sweeping, ultra, thorough, escharotic, harsh, stiff, tough, dire, forcible, rough, strong, essential, **2.** potent, *synonyms* (*adj*) powerful, cogent, forceful, influential, hard, mighty, persuasive, efficacious, lusty, vigorous, energetic, firm, (*n*) effective, effectual, efficient; *antonyms* (*adj*) weak, impotent.
- **CHMBOJI 1.** symbol; *synonyms* (*n*) sign, emblem, number, badge, mark, stamp, insignia, numeral, token, type, allegory, character, figure, image, indication, **2**. character; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, nature, note, part, quality, role, brand, constitution, description, disposition, eccentric, spirit, tone, standing, atmosphere, **3**. type; *synonyms* (*n*) pattern, sort, breed, category, font, form, manner, print, style, prototype, case, cast, class, device, (*adj*) model, **4**. sign; *synonyms* (*n*) signal, motion, portent, imprint, manifestation, omen, poster, presage, wave, forerunner, attribute, augury, (*v*) gesture, indicate, autograph.
- **символічний 1.** symbolic; *synonyms* (*adj*) emblematical, representative, emblematic, figurative, symbolical, characteristic, metaphorical, significant, (*v*) typical, symptomatic, diacritical, (*n*) symbolics; *antonym* (*adj*) literal, **2.** typical; *synonyms* (*adj*) regular, classic, distinctive, model, average, natural, conventional, distinguishing, symbolic, usual, common, peculiar, exemplary, (*v*) normal, ordinary; *antonyms* (*adj*) atypical, unusual, uncharacteristic, unconventional.
- **cumerpis** symmetry; *synonyms* (*n*) balance, proportion, order, correspondence, equilibrium, regularity, consistency, harmony, coextension, composition, counterbalance, equality, equipoise, parity,

- symmetricalness; *antonyms* (*n*) asymmetry, disproportion, irregularity.
- **симпатичний** sympathetic; *synonyms* (*adj*) kind, compassionate, kindly, congenial, tender, merciful, humane, agreeable, favorable, friendly, considerate, (*n*) gentle, caring, (*v*) affectionate, pitiful; *antonyms* (*adj*) unsympathetic, hardhearted, unfeeling.
- **CUMINATIS** sympathy; *synonyms* (n) compassion, pity, benevolence, commiseration, feeling, humanity, kindness, mercy, rapport, understanding, agreement, clemency, comfort, affection, (adj) charity; antonyms (n) indifference, cruelty.
- **CHMITTOM 1.** Symptom; *synonyms* (*n*) sign, indication, evidence, mark, note, manifestation, token, signal, characteristic, omen, exponent, **2.** indication; *synonyms* (*n*) clue, index, designation, direction, forerunner, herald, emblem, gesture, harbinger, hint, reference, cue, allusion, inkling, intimation, **3.** sign; *synonyms* (*n*) motion, portent, brand, imprint, poster, presage, wave, attribute, augury, badge, banner, ensign, (*y*) indicate, autograph, bless.
- **симулювати** pretend; *synonyms* (*v*) assume, feign, dissimulate, counterfeit, act, affect, dissemble, imagine, imitate, profess, mask, (*adj*) sham, fake, play, (*n*) allege; *antonyms* (*v*) real, (*adj*) genuine, natural.
- **син 1**. son; *synonyms* (*n*) offspring, boy, lad, child, descendant, logos, word, bible, countersign, discussion, intelligence, kid, news, parole, password, **2**. boy (хлопець); *synonyms* (*n*) fellow, male, man, minor, servant, son, youngster, youth, boots, **3**. child (дитина); *synonyms* (*n*) baby, babe, bairn, brat, girl, infant, juvenile, toddler, tot, innocent, imp, daughter, individual, nestling, progeny; *antonym* (*n*) adult.
- **синдром** syndrome; *synonyms* (*n*) ailment, complaint, complex, sickness, disorder, malady, bug, condition, disease, ill, illness, infection, virus, affection, concurrence.
- **синій** blue (блакитний); *synonyms* (*adj*) azure, depressed, down, gloomy, low, cheerless, dejected, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, naughty, sad, sapphire, spicy, black.
- **CUHTAKCHC** Syntax; *synonyms* (n) grammar, accidence, syntaxis, organism.
- **синтаксичний** syntactic; *synonym* (*adj*) syntactical. **синтез** synthesis; *synonyms* (*n*) combination, fusion, compound, incorporation, mixture, union, composite, unification, amalgam, complex, deduction; *antonym* (*n*) separation.
- **синтетичний** synthetic; *synonyms* (*adj*) artificial, ersatz, false, simulated, synthetical, celluloid, fake, semisynthetic; *antonyms* (*adj*) natural, genuine, real.
- **синька** blue (блакитний, синій); *synonyms* (*adj*) azure, depressed, down, gloomy, low, cheerless, dejected, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, naughty, sad, sapphire, spicy, black.
- **cup** cheese; *synonyms* (n) cheeseflower, exaggeration, cake, (v) misrepresent.
- **сирий 1**. damp, *synonyms* (*adj*) moist, muggy, clammy, cool, dank, humid, (*v*) break, check, chill, deaden, benumb, (*n*) wet, dampness, moisture, clamminess;

- antonyms (adj) dry, (n) dryness, 2. raw; synonyms (adj) crude, fresh, immature, bleak, coarse, cutting, green, piercing, sore, cold, biting, chilly, inclement, inexperienced, naked; antonyms (adj) refined, cooked, 3. crude; synonyms (adj) clumsy, raw, rough, rude, barbarous, primitive, uncouth, vulgar, barbarian, abrupt, churlish, earthy, gross, impolite, indecent; antonym (adj) sophisticated, 4. moist; synonyms (adj) damp, dampish, soggy, wettish, juicy, sodden, sticky, watery, dripping, marshy, succulent, sweaty.
- **сироватка** serum; *synonyms* (*n*) juice, antitoxin, medicine, (*adj*) lymph, humor, sap.
- CHCTEMA 1. System; synonyms (n) method, arrangement, network, organization, plan, order, means, structure, process, form, frame, rule, establishment, mode, organisation, 2. method; synonyms (n) course, fashion, approach, custom, formula, manner, system, way, device, practice, procedure, routine, style, technique, disposition; antonym (n) disorder, 3. scheme; synonyms (n) contrivance, dodge, diagram, project, schedule, conspiracy, figure, chart, (v) plot, design, intrigue, devise, conspire, contrive, connive.
- систематизований organic; synonyms (adj) constitutional, natural, constitutive, fundamental, constituent, inherent, structural, whole, raw; antonym (adj) refined.
- **систематизувати** arrange; *synonyms* (*v*) adjust, appoint, dress, order, set, settle, pack, adapt, agree, classify, compose, decorate, do, engineer, fix; *antonyms* (*v*) disturb, disarrange.
- **систематичний** systematic; *synonyms* (*adj*) methodical, orderly, regular, tidy, neat, businesslike, logical, correct, consistent, efficient, ordered, shipshape, symmetrical, uniform; *antonym* (*adj*) unsystematic.
- **cutyaцis 1**. situation; *synonyms* (n) place, employment, position, post, job, matter, circumstance, circumstances, condition, location, office, point, seat, site, rank, **2**. context; *synonyms* (n) environment, setting, surroundings, background, atmosphere, note, page, backdrop, milieu, case, ambiance, meaning, perspective, agenda, basis, **3**. angle (KyT); *synonyms* (n) hook, incline, view, aspect, cant, corner, outlook, pitch, viewpoint, side, (v) slant, lean, tilt, fish, slope.
- ci si; synonyms (n) ti, silicon, tellurium, titanium.
- **сідло** saddle; *synonyms* (*n*) saddleback, seat, (*v*) charge, burden, load, encumber, blame, burthen, lumber.
- сідок passenger (пасажир); synonyms (n) traveler, wayfarer, itinerant, rider, voyager, passer, arrival, passager, client, drop, excursionist, load, patron, wanderer.
- cik juice; synonyms (n) extract, water, blood, gravy, liquid, succus, fluid, liquor, fuel, gasoline, current, oil, (adj) humor, serum, lymph.
- cika4 bill; synonyms (n) account, beak, advertisement, card, invoice, poster, receipt, act, banknote, check, measure, (v) placard, advertise, charge, list.
- CLIJL salt; synonyms (n) salinity, sal, blunt, cream, dust, mopus, (adj) salty, saline, briny, spice, pungent, season, (v) cure, pickle, embalm.
- **сільський 1**. rural; *synonyms* (*adj*) provincial, rustic, agricultural, countrified, country, pastoral, predial,

- agrestic, arable; *antonyms* (*adj*) urban, city, **2**. country; *synonyms* (*n*) state, nation, home, land, area, commonwealth, kingdom, place, realm, region, soil, territory, district, (*adj*) rural, public.
- сільськогосподарський agricultural; synonyms (adj) agrarian, rural, farming, rustic, undeveloped, unindustrialized, floricultural, gardening, horticultural, ranch
- cim seven; synonyms (n) heptad, septet, ace, eight, jack, king, knave, nine, queen, septette, ten, deuce, five, four, sevensome.
- **сімейство** family (родина); *synonyms* (n) descent, household, name, breed, brood, clan, class, genus, house, kin, lineage, people, (adj) home, ancestry, domestic.
- ciм'я family (родина); synonyms (n) descent, household, name, breed, brood, clan, class, genus, house, kin, lineage, people, (adj) home, ancestry, domestic.
- **сіно** hay; *synonyms* (*n*) fodder, feed, bunk, food, silage, hedge, meal, pasture.
- сірий 1. grey; synonyms (adj) dim, dull, greyish, hoar, hoary, leaden, grayish, (n) grayness, greyness, (v) gray,
   2. gray; synonyms (adj) bleak, gloomy, grizzled, old, overcast, pale, dismal, murky, white, cheerless, cloudy, foggy, ashen, (n) grizzle, (v) grey; antonym (adj) bright.
- **cipκa** sulphur; *synonyms* (n) s, mho, quebrith, sec, second, siemens, south, (ν) brimstone, sulfur.
- сірник match; synonyms (n) equal, competition, couple, duplicate, (v) agree, mate, meet, parallel, accord, correspond, harmonise, harmonize, balance, fellow, fit; antonyms (v) clash, contradict.
- **cictu** sit; *synonyms* (v) model, pose, rest, ride, place, posture, put, seat, set, squat, meet, hold, convene, locate, mount; *antonyms* (v) stand, rise.
- citi net; synonyms (adj) final, last, (n) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, (v) mesh, clear, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; antonym (v) gross.
- citka 1. net; synonyms (adj) final, last, (n) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, (v) mesh, clear, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; antonym (v) gross, 2. network; synonyms (n) net, grid, netting, reticulation, meshwork, web, grating, lattice, system, complex, labyrinth, (v) link, communicate, contact, exchange.
- cits 1. net; synonyms (adj) final, last, (n) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, (v) mesh, clear, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; antonym (v) gross, 2. network; synonyms (n) net, grid, netting, reticulation, meshwork, web, grating, lattice, system, complex, labyrinth, (v) link, communicate, contact, exchange.
- cistu 1. seed; synonyms (n) germ, issue, posterity, root, offspring, progeny, origin, nucleus, brood, embryo, source, beginning, (v) inseminate, plant, sow, 2. crop; synonyms (n) fruit, harvest, craw, (v) browse, graze, reap, top, cultivate, cut, lop, prune, shave, trim, (adj) clip, shear, 3. plant; synonyms (n) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, (v) fix, place, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lay, bury.
- **скажений** mad; *synonyms* (*adj*) frantic, frenzied, demented, foolish, insane, delirious, angry, crazy, distracted, frenetic, lunatic, wild, irate, (*n*) furious, anger; *antonyms* (*adj*) sane, calm, sensible.

- cka3 madness; synonyms (n) frenzy, furor, insanity, lunacy, delirium, folly, idiocy, insaneness, aberration, anger, craziness, (adj) fury, rage, desperation, furore; antonyms (n) sanity, sense.
- **CKA3ATH 1**. Say; *synonyms* (v) remark, articulate, express, pronounce, assert, enunciate, observe, maintain, order, read, speak, state, tell, (n) declare, voice, **2**. tell; *synonyms* (v) relate, divulge, impart, recount, reveal, explain, announce, command, communicate, describe, distinguish, enumerate, inform, (n) disclose, count; *antonym* (v) request, **3**. speak; *synonyms* (v) converse, deliver, say, utter, discourse, recite, talk, lecture, address, emit, mouth, vocalize, mumble, prattle, declaim.
- **скакати 1**. jump (стрибати); *synonyms* (*v*) hop, spring, dive, hurdle, rise, skip, startle, clear, dance, (*n*) leap, bound, bounce, start, caper, curvet; *antonyms* (*v*) decrease, fall, **2**. bound; *synonyms* (*v*) border, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, restrict, vault, (*n*) jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, recoil, limitation; *antonym* (*adj*) free.
- **скалка** chip; *synonyms* (n) splinter, bit, flake, chipping, fleck, fragment, microchip, part, scrap, shaving, check, (v) crack, cut, nick, peel.
- **скам'янілий** fossil; *synonyms* (*n*) fogey, fogy, dodo, conservative, parent, relic, (*adj*) flint, obsolete, granite, preglacial, quartz, ancient, marble, old, pebble.
- **скам'янілість** fossil; *synonyms* (n) fogey, fogy, dodo, conservative, parent, relic, (adj) flint, obsolete, granite, preglacial, quartz, ancient, marble, old, pebble.
- **CKAHJAJI** scandal; *synonyms* (n) disgrace, dishonor, gossip, outrage, discredit, rumor, infamy, disrepute, backbiting, detraction, dirt, ignominy, opprobrium, shame, obloquy; *antonym* (n) honor.
- **скандалити** row; *synonyms* (n) altercation, line, file, rank, squabble, wrangle, clash, dispute, (v) quarrel, brawl, fight, argue, bicker, order, (adj) fracas; *antonyms* (n) agreement, (v) agree.
- **ckap6** treasure; *synonyms* (n) gem, prize, fortune, riches, funds, valuable, pearl, capital, (v) cherish, esteem, hoard, appreciate, store, garner, (adj) jewel.
- **скарбник** treasurer; *synonyms* (n) cashier, banker, financier, fiscal, guardian, keeper, official, revenue, tutor.
- **скарбинця 1**. treasury; *synonyms* (n) exchequer, storehouse, thesaurus, anthology, bank, mine, store, chest, coffer, purse, repertory, safe, magazine, strongbox, agriculture, **2**. reservoir; *synonyms* (n) cistern, fountain, well, lake, hoard, reserve, stock, supply, tank.
- ckap6y treasure; synonyms (n) gem, prize, fortune, riches, funds, valuable, pearl, capital, (v) cherish, esteem, hoard, appreciate, store, garner, (adj) jewel.
- **ckapra 1.** complaint; *synonyms* (*n*) accusation, ailment, charge, affection, disease, disorder, ill, illness, lament, plaint, protest, sickness, wail, whine, claim, **2**. information; *synonyms* (*n*) advice, communication, data, evidence, note, enlightenment, report, tidings, complaint, counsel, info, instruction, intelligence, material, warning.

- **скаржитися** complain; *synonyms* (*v*) beef, bemoan, bewail, protest, squawk, whine, grudge, accuse, carp, croak, gripe, grouse, grumble, mutter, object; *antonym* (*v*) compliment.
- **СКасовування** cancel; *synonyms* (*v*) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (*adj*) abolish, nullify; *antonym* (*v*) validate.
- **скасовувати** cancel; *synonyms* (*v*) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (*adj*) abolish, nullify; *antonym* (*v*) validate.
- **скасування 1.** abolition; *synonyms* (*n*) abolishment, annulment, destruction, ending, annihilation, cancellation, eradication, repeal; *antonym* (*n*) reinstatement, **2.** demolition; *synonyms* (*n*) demolishment, devastation, obliteration, ruin, razing, sabotage, death, disposal, bulldozing, destroyer, downfall, end, explosion, leveling, slaying; *antonym* (*n*) construction, **3.** cancellation; *synonyms* (*n*) abolition, cancel, negation, recall, termination, retirement, annulling, omission, circumduction, receipt, renunciation, abandoning, abolishing, circumlocution, contradiction, **4.** cancel; *synonyms* (*v*) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, annihilate, (*adj*) abolish, nullify; *antonym* (*v*) validate.
- **скасувати** cancel; *synonyms* (*v*) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (*adj*) abolish, nullify; *antonym* (*v*) validate.
- **скатерка** cloth; *synonyms* (n) fabric, material, cover, rag, stuff, textile, calling, net. (v) napkin.
- **скатертина** cloth; *synonyms* (*n*) fabric, material, cover, rag, stuff, textile, calling, net, (*v*) napkin.
- скафандр armour; synonym (v) armor.
- CKBEP square; synonyms (adj) right, even, rectangular, fair, quadrate, straight, equal, (n) area, foursquare, rectangle, quadrilateral, (v) settle, agree, correspond, (adv) just.
- **скелет** skeleton; *synonyms* (*n*) carcass, frame, framework, sketch, bones, anatomy, body, outline, scaffold, cadaver, chassis, corpse, plan, shell, (*v*) draft.
- **СКЕЛЯ** rock; *synonyms* (n) boulder, calculus, pillar, (v) jar, sway, cradle, jolt, shake, toss, waver, quake, pitch, reel, (*adj*) pebble, stone.
- **скелястий** rocky; *synonyms* (*adj*) hard, unstable, rough, shaky, craggy, flinty, stony, wobbly, unsteady, harsh, insecure, obdurate, rugged, bouldered, bouldery.
- **скептицизм** scepticism; *synonyms* (n) disbelief, skepticism, incredulity, agnosticism, atheism, demure.
- **скептичний** sceptical; *synonyms* (*adj*) doubting, questioning, skeptical, unbelieving, disbelieving, atheistic, atheistical, inquisitive, nescient, quizzical, speculative.
- **скибка** slice; *synonyms* (*n*) share, part, section, bit, chip, gash, morsel, piece, slab, chunk, portion, (*v*) cut, slash, carve, lacerate.

- **скибочка** slice; *synonyms* (*n*) share, part, section, bit, chip, gash, morsel, piece, slab, chunk, portion, (*v*) cut, slash, carve, lacerate.
- **СКИДАТИ** Cast; *synonyms* (*v*) hurl, throw, form, shed, stamp, fling, shape, chuck, dump, figure, heave, mould, (*n*) appearance, casting, mold.
- **ckinetp** rod; *synonyms* (n) bar, baton, perch, shaft, whip, arm, cane, gat, staff, wand, truncheon, club, cudgel, (v) stick, line.
- склад 1. store; synonyms (n) hoard, shop, market, business, emporium, heap, reserve, (v) stock, accumulate, garner, amass, bank, cache, keep, preserve, 2. composition; synonyms (n) arrangement, constitution, construction, texture, alloy, amalgam, article, combination, composing, compost, compound, compromise, harmony, makeup, organization, 3. warehouse; synonyms (n) store, storehouse, godown, depository, depot, repository, entrepot, promptuary, (v) magazine, 4. depot; synonyms (n) arsenal, station, warehouse, dump, stockroom, stop, storage, storeroom, terminal, terminus, 5. compound; synonyms (n) blend, complex, mix, concoction, mixture, brew, composition, preparation, (v) amalgamate, combine, augment, commingle, coalesce, (adj) composite, mixed; antonym (adj) simple, 6. storage; synonyms (n) conservation, memory, preservation, retention, accumulation, reposition, warehousing.
- **складати 1**. make (робити); *synonyms* (*v*) build, cause, construct, do, create, fashion, force, get, give, produce, let, compel, constitute, design, (*n*) form; *antonyms* (*v*) destroy, lose, **2**. constitute; *synonyms* (*v*) compose, make, commission, appoint, comprise, establish, be, found, institute, name, nominate, ordain, organize, designate, configure, **3**. amount; *synonyms* (*n*) number, quantity, aggregate, measure, sum, total, degree, extent, figure, price, volume, body, bulk, cost, (*v*) come.
- **СКЛАДАТИСЯ** Consist; *synonyms* (*v*) be, belong, lie, comprise, exist, fit, reside, (*n*) abide, agree.
- **складений** 1. composite; *synonyms* (*adj*) aggregate, mixed, (*n*) complex, amalgam, blend, mix, combination, alloy, complicated, mixture, synthesis, (*v*) compound, 2. compound; *synonyms* (*n*) concoction, brew, composition, preparation, compost, union, agree, (*v*) amalgamate, combine, compromise, augment, commingle, coalesce, multiply, (*adj*) composite; *antonym* (*adj*) simple, 3. made; *synonyms* (*adj*) finished, built, ready, constructed, formed, prepared, synthetic, bound, complete, completed, ended, fictitious, rabid, through.
- **складний 1.** complicated; *synonyms* (*adj*) complex, intricate, elaborate, hard, complicate, awkward, convoluted, deep, difficult, knotty, obscure, sophisticated, tortuous, tricky, (*v*) involved; *antonyms* (*adj*) simple, straightforward, clear, easy, **2.** complex; *synonyms* (*adj*) composite, abstruse, abstract, multifarious, complicated, compound, multiple, perplexing, thorny, (*n*) obsession, combination, syndrome, whole, character, system; *antonyms* (*adj*) basic, plain, **3.** compound; *synonyms* (*n*) blend, mix, amalgam, concoction, mixture, brew, composition, preparation, (*v*) alloy, amalgamate, combine,

- compromise, augment, commingle, (adj) mixed, 4. composite; synonyms (adj) aggregate, (n) synthesis, 5. sophisticated; synonyms (adj) refined, cultured, experienced, urbane, advanced, polished, suave, cosmopolitan, knowledgeable, cultivated, elegant, knowing, subtle, (v) adulterated, contraband; antonyms (adj) naive, unsophisticated, coarse, inexperienced, insular, 6. intricate; synonyms (adj) entangled, inextricable, knotted, dark, labyrinthine, mazy, tangled, 7. tricky; synonyms (adj) crafty, cunning, artful, deceitful, sly, delicate, foxy, shifty, slippery, wily, designing, dodgy, guileful, scheming, shrewd; antonym (adj) honest.
- **складність** complexity; *synonyms* (n) complication, intricacy, complex, convolution, complexness, confusion, muddle, character, combination, complexion, depth, embarrassment, imbroglio, insight, (adj) entanglement; antonyms (n) simplicity, clarity.
- **складовий 1.** component; synonyms (n) constituent, factor, ingredient, part, detail, element, feature, member, unit, accessory, division, piece, portion, section, (adj) fundamental, **2.** complex; synonyms (adj) composite, complicate, abstruse, difficult, elaborate, intricate, knotty, abstract, tricky, multifarious, complicated, compound, convoluted, (n) obsession, combination; antonyms (adj) simple, basic, straightforward, clear, plain, **3.** constituent; synonyms (adj) integral, (n) component, elector, item, agent; antonyms (n) aggregate, whole, **4.** compound; synonyms (n) blend, complex, mix, amalgam, concoction, mixture, brew, composition, preparation, (v) alloy, amalgamate, combine, compromise, augment, (adj) mixed.
- **склепіння** arch; *synonyms* (*n*) arc, acute, bend, curvature, dome, archway, (*v*) curve, bow, vault, (*adj*) shrewd, sly, wily, round, crafty, consummate; *antonym* (*v*) straightness.
- **скликання** calling; *synonyms* (n) vocation, business, call, occupation, profession, avocation, career, employment, job, trade, walk, pursuit, craft, mission, work.
- **СКЛИКАТИ** call; *synonyms* (v) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (n) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; *antonym* (v) dismiss.
- скло 1. glass; synonyms (n) pane, bottle, drink, bowl, cup, goblet, chalice, glassful, spyglass, telescope, tumbler, window, (v) glaze, (adj) ice, 2. glasses (окуляри); synonyms (n) spectacles, eyeglasses, specs, bifocals, monocle.
- СКЛОРІЗ pencil (олівець); synonyms (n) pen, beam, clump, cluster, gleam, group, light, (v) brush, draw, design, paint.
- **СКЛЯНИЙ** glass (СКЛО); *synonyms* (*n*) pane, bottle, drink, bowl, cup, goblet, chalice, glassful, spyglass, telescope, tumbler, window, (*v*) glaze, (*adj*) ice.
- **СКЛЯНКа** glass (СКЛО); *synonyms* (*n*) pane, bottle, drink, bowl, cup, goblet, chalice, glassful, spyglass, telescope, tumbler, window, (*v*) glaze, (*adj*) ice.
- **сковорода** pan; *synonyms* (*n*) dish, knock, rap, panning, plate, platter, porringer, pot, saucer, calabash, hardpan, (*v*) slam, criticize, review.

- **скорий** 1. fast; *synonyms* (*adj*) dissolute, firm, agile, debauched, fixed, hurried, instant, quick, rapid, staunch, brisk, (*adv*) soon, hard, close, (*n*) diet; *antonyms* (*adj*) sluggish, loose, (*adv*) slow, slowly, leisurely, (*v*) gorge, (*n*) binge, 2. rapid; *synonyms* (*adj*) fast, prompt, swift, fleet, hasty, speedy, cursory, expeditious, sudden, nimble, winged, express, immediate, impetuous, active; *antonym* (*adj*) gradual, 3. quick (Швидкий); *synonyms* (*adj*) bright, clever, intelligent, alert, alive, dexterous, keen, lively, brief, abrupt, acute, animated, apt, ingenious, sharp; *antonym* (*adj*) dull.
- **CKOPUCTATIOS** profit; *synonyms* (n) gain, benefit, account, good, produce, earnings, increase, dividend, interest, (v) net, advance, avail, earn, help, (adj) advantage; *antonym* (v) lose.
- **ckopo 1**. soon; *synonyms* (*adv*) shortly, early, presently, anon, immediately, directly, betimes, now, promptly, quickly, soonly, briefly, erelong, fast, quick, **2**. shortly; *synonyms* (*adv*) soon, abruptly, concisely, curtly, short, brusquely, rapidly, (*adj*) forthwith, summarily.
- **скороминущий** passing; *synonyms* (*adj*) ephemeral, fleeting, momentary, transient, brief, cursory, fugitive, impermanent, casual, (*n*) overtaking, death, decease, departure, expiration, passage; *antonyms* (*adj*) permanent, lasting.
- **Скорочення** contraction; *synonyms* (n) abbreviation, constriction, abridgement, abridgement, condensation, shrink, compression, convulsion, decrease, shrinkage, tightening, diminution, narrowing, reduction, spasm; *antonym* (n) expansion.
- **скорочувати** cut; *synonyms* (*v*) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (*n*) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, lengthen, (*n*) addition, extension.
- **CKOTAPCTBO** breeding; *synonyms* (*n*) education, generation, manners, nurture, reproduction, upbringing, cultivation, culture, fosterage, fostering, procreation, raising, rearing, teaching, training.
- **скочити** jump (стрибати); *synonyms* (*v*) hop, spring, dive, hurdle, rise, skip, startle, clear, dance, (*n*) leap, bound, bounce, start, caper, curvet; *antonyms* (*v*) decrease, fall.
- **скривавлений** bloody; *synonyms* (*adj*) gory, bleeding, bloodthirsty, damned, murderous, raw, sanguinary, sanguine, sanguineous, savage, rare, (*adv*) damn; *antonym* (*adj*) bloodless.
- скринька 1. box; synonyms (n) basket, cage, chest, package, booth, blow, carton, case, container, crate, envelope, (v) cuff, buffet, beat, fight; antonym (v) unbox, 2. case; synonyms (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, action, (adj) patient.
- **скриня** 1. box; *synonyms* (n) basket, cage, chest, package, booth, blow, carton, case, container, crate, envelope, (v) cuff, buffet, beat, fight; *antonym* (v) unbox, 2. chest; *synonyms* (n) bosom, bust, box, bureau, casket, dresser, chamber, thorax, treasury, trunk, 3. case; *synonyms* (n) example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, action, cause, (*adf*) patient.

- скрізь 1. everywhere; *synonyms* (*adv*) everyplace, overall, somewhere, where, (*pron*) anywhere, (*n*) anyplace, 2. anywhere, 3. about; *synonyms* (*prep*) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, (*adv*) around, approximately, almost, nearly, most, roughly, in, nearby, (*adj*) some, near; *antonyms* (*prep*) exactly,
- **скромний** 1. modest; *synonyms* (*adj*) humble, bashful, diffident, lowly, moderate, gentle, chaste, decent, low, meek, small, unassuming, unobtrusive, distant, coy; *antonyms* (*adj*) arrogant, conceited, elaborate, pompous, pretentious, proud, self-important, showy, spectacular, boastful, conspicuous, grand, immodest, ostentatious, 2. discreet; *synonyms* (*adj*) circumspect, prudent, careful, cautious, chary, discerning, tactful, wise, diplomatic, considerate, judicious, modest, politic, sensible, thoughtful; *antonyms* (*adj*) tactless, careless, indiscreet, 3. humble: *synonyms* (*adj*) hase docile, baseborn.
  - 3. humble; *synonyms* (*adj*) base, docile, baseborn, ignoble, (*v*) degrade, demean, disgrace, abase, debase, humiliate, mortify, conquer, depress, lower, (*n*) dishonor; *antonyms* (*adj*) haughty, imposing, impressive, snooty,
  - 4. decent; synonyms (adj) proper, adequate, appropriate, acceptable, becoming, comely, decorous, honest, respectable, right, seemly, sufficient, ethical, fair, fitting; antonyms (adj) immoral, unwholesome, inappropriate, disreputable, filthy, inadequate, indecent, unsuitable, 5. simple; synonyms (adj) plain, homely, pure, elementary, innocent, mere, natural, rustic, bare, childish, childlike, easy, foolish, (v) clear, downright; antonyms (adj) complex, complicated, compound, difficult, multiple, obscure, ornate, confused, confusing, cunning, multifaceted, problematical, sophisticated, 6. quiet; synonyms (adj) still, lull, pacify, cool, motionless, peaceful, (v) appease, assuage, allay, silence, (n) calm, hush, compose, ease, peace; antonyms (adj) loud, noisy, talkative, vociferous, active, (n) noise.
- **CKPOMHICTL** Simplicity; synonyms (n) innocence, ease, easiness, plainness, simpleness, clarity, artlessness, austerity, gullibility, severity, ignorance, frankness, rusticity, informality, (adj) inexperience; antonyms (n) difficulty, complexity, ambiguity.
- CKPOHЯ temple (xpam); synonyms (n) church, tabernacle, shrine, brow, synagogue, forehead, chapel, kirk, meetinghouse, basilica, chantry, conventicle, memorial, oratory, side.
- **скрупульозний** nice; *synonyms* (*adj*) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, correct, decent, delicate, difficult; *antonyms* (*adj*) unpleasant, horrible.
- ckpyra difficulty; synonyms (n) hindrance, impediment, trouble, bother, asperity, jam, barrier, difficultness, fix, hardship, inconvenience, obstacle, strait, adversity, disadvantage; antonyms (n) ease, simplicity, advantage, help.
- **скрутний 1**. difficult; *synonyms* (*adj*) arduous, awkward, demanding, burdensome, complicated, delicate, fastidious, hard, knotty, uphill, finicky, abstruse, ambitious, cantankerous, complex; *antonyms* (*adj*) easy, simple, straightforward, good-natured, rewarding, clear, 2. awkward; *synonyms* (*adj*) clumsy, inconvenient, crude, embarrassing, inept, sticky, uncomfortable,

- ungainly, untoward, left-handed, annoying, bungling, cumbersome, difficult, graceless; *antonyms* (*adj*) graceful, adroit, manageable, convenient, dexterous, helpful, rotund, **3**. embarrassing; *synonyms* (*adj*) disconcerting, humiliating, perplexing, shameful.
- **скручування** twist; *synonyms* (n) twine, wind, spin, twirl, entwine, (v) turn, bend, distort, curl, coil, contort, deform, curve, pervert, wrench; *antonyms* (v) straighten, untwist
- **скульптура 1**. sculpture; *synonyms* (n) carving, cut, statue, figure, (v) carve, engrave, grave, mold, sculpt, model, form, shape, knead, **2**. imagery; *synonyms* (n) imagination, imaging, portraiture, images, idealism, appearance, descriptions, imaginativeness, imitation, metaphors, resource, resourcefulness, similes, tomography, (adj) image.
- **скупий** mean; *synonyms* (*v*) intend, design, imply, denote, involve, (*adj*) middle, base, common, hateful, ignoble, medium, miserly, (*n*) average, contemptible, low; *antonyms* (*adj*) generous. kind.
- **скупчення** 1. collection; *synonyms* (*n*) accumulation, assembly, assortment, bundle, gathering, set, bunch, cluster, compilation, heap, mass, pile, variety, batch, (*v*) assemblage, 2. accumulation; *synonyms* (*n*) store, stock, accretion, accrual, accruement, hoard, reserve, deposit, addition, aggregation, collection, concentration, congestion, group, (*v*) gain; *antonym* (*n*) shortage, 3. cluster; *synonyms* (*n*) clump, agglomeration, crowd, gang, knot, lot, tuft, party, band, clustering, (*v*) huddle, collect, gather, assemble, concentrate; *antonym* (*v*) disperse, 4. mass (маса); *synonyms* (*adj*) block, (*n*) bulk, lump, magnitude, majority, aggregate, amount, body, multitude, stack, throng, (*v*) flock, congregate, load, swarm.
- **CKYTICTL** Constraint; *synonyms* (*n*) coercion, compulsion, force, restraint, confinement, duress, enforcement, limitation, obligation, pressure, restriction, coaction, check, condition, (*adj*) reserve; *antonym* (*n*) incentive.
- **слабий** weak; *synonyms* (*adj*) feeble, frail, faint, flat, flimsy, fragile, thin, watery, light, ailing, cowardly, delicate, diluted, exhausted, inadequate; *antonyms* (*adj*) strong, brave, concentrated, firm, safe, compelling, determined, effective, forceful, healthy, intense, powerful, resolute, robust, sturdy.
- **слабість** weakness; *synonyms* (*n*) debility, defect, failing, fault, deficiency, feebleness, fragility, imperfection, flaw, frailty, inadequacy, blemish, predilection, (*adj*) infirmity, foible; *antonyms* (*n*) strength, power, dislike, advantage, brightness, determination, intensity, supremacy.
- **слабкий 1.** weak; *synonyms* (*adj*) feeble, frail, faint, flat, flimsy, fragile, thin, watery, light, ailing, cowardly, delicate, diluted, exhausted, inadequate; *antonyms* (*adj*) strong, brave, concentrated, firm, safe, compelling, determined, effective, forceful, healthy, intense, powerful, resolute, robust, sturdy, **2.** faint; *synonyms* (*adj*) collapse, dim, dizzy, indistinct, weak, dull, gentle, soft, vague, distant, drop, (v) languish, swoon, droop, conk; *antonyms* (*adj*) distinct, clear, obvious, considerable, loud, pungent, **3.** delicate; *synonyms* (*adj*) fine, accurate, breakable, dainty, refined, tender,

- beautiful, brittle, difficult, nice, sensitive, slim, agreeable, infirm, careful; *antonyms* (*adj*) inelegant, heavy, tough, **4**. tender; *synonyms* (*adj*) affectionate, painful, loving, sore, compassionate, fond, mild, caring, (v) proffer, present, propose, give, (n) offer, bid, overture; *antonyms* (*adj*) hard, hardhearted, rubbery, rough, **5**. pale; *synonyms* (*adj*) ghastly, wan, pallid, cadaverous, colorless, faded, fair, sickly, (v) blanch, (n) boundary, confine, border, bound, limit, picket; *antonyms* (*adj*) dark, rosy, brown.
- **слабкість** weakness; *synonyms* (*n*) debility, defect, failing, fault, deficiency, feebleness, fragility, imperfection, flaw, frailty, inadequacy, blemish, predilection, (*adj*) infirmity, foible; *antonyms* (*n*) strength, power, dislike, advantage, brightness, determination, intensity, supremacy.
- слабнути fail; synonyms (v) abort, collapse, fade, cease, abandon, break, bust, default, deteriorate, die, disappoint, flag, want, (adj) decline, drop; antonyms (v) succeed, triumph.
- слава 1. glory; synonyms (n) fame, celebrity, brightness, honor, pride, distinction, credit, dignity, eclat, eminence, glitter, glorification, (v) halo, exult, boast, 2. fame; synonyms (n) report, reputation, bruit, prestige, renown, buzz, hearsay, kudos, name, notoriety, rumor, character, regard, (v) cry, esteem; antonyms (n) infamy, obscurity, anonymity, 3. odour; synonyms (n) fragrance, flavour, aroma, smell, odor, scent, flavor, feel, feeling, look, olfaction. smelling. spirit. tone.
- СЛАВЕТНИЙ famous; synonyms (adj) celebrated, eminent, splendid, distinguished, famed, illustrious, renowned, capital, conspicuous, important, known, notable, notorious, prominent, stunning; antonyms (adj) unknown, infamous, ordinary.
- славний 1. glorious; synonyms (adj) famous, distinguished, bright, brilliant, celebrated, illustrious, eminent, great, magnificent, splendid, super, proud, resplendent, superb, lofty, 2. famous; synonyms (adj) famed, renowned, capital, conspicuous, important, known, notable, notorious, prominent, stunning, extraordinary, glorious, noted, outstanding, popular; antonyms (adj) unknown, infamous, ordinary, 3. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, correct. decent, delicate, difficult; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible, 4. pleasant; synonyms (adj) acceptable, amiable, charming, jolly, kindly, nice, facetious, affable, attractive, cheerful, clear, comfortable, congenial, delightful, enjoyable; antonyms (adj) disagreeable, disgusting, foul, gruesome, harsh, nasty, repugnant, shocking, terrible, unwelcome, appalling, discordant, frosty, grisly, rough.
- слайд slide; synonyms (n) glide, chute, decline, transparency, gliding, (v) drop, slip, fall, slither, run, slump, coast, skid, descend, (adj) shift.
- слід 1. trace; synonyms (n) line, shadow, spot, clue, dash, hint, indication, mark, shade, sign, suggestion, touch, (v) track, hunt, pursue, 2. trail; synonyms (n) trace, path, course, trudge, pathway, (v) haul, drag, tail, chase, train, draw, tow, dog, pull, lag, 3. track; synonyms (n) racetrack, road, route, circuit, orbit, lane, lead,

- racecourse, rail, rails, (v) trail, follow, footprint, stalk, footstep.
- CJII\_JKYBATII follow; synonyms (v) chase, pursue, adhere, adopt, accompany, comprehend, continue, ensue, grasp, hunt, realize, succeed, track, emulate, (adj) catch; antonyms (v) precede, guide, head, lead.
- слідство 1. inquiry; synonyms (n) examination, enquiry, investigation, exploration, hearing, inquest, query, question, research, trial, demand, analysis, inspection, probe, (v) search, 2. inquest; synonyms (n) inquiry, quest, inquisition, 3. investigation; synonyms (n) scrutiny, check, review, investigating, study, audit, interrogation, hunt, experiment, inquire, survey, test, indagation, surveillance.
- слідування following; synonyms (adj) consequent, next, ensuing, subsequent, consecutive, later, posterior, succeeding, (v) consequential, (n) entourage, chase, followers, pursuit, (adv) under, after; antonym (adj) preceding.
- cnine blind; synonyms (adj) sightless, undiscerning, (v) bedazzle, daze, dazzle, obscure, (n) screen, curtain, shutter, awning, drape, trick, veil, camouflage, cheat; antonym (adj) sighted.
- **сліпий** blind; *synonyms* (*adj*) sightless, undiscerning, (*v*) bedazzle, daze, dazzle, obscure, (*n*) screen, curtain, shutter, awning, drape, trick, veil, camouflage, cheat; *antonym* (*adj*) sighted.
- словесний verbal; synonyms (adj) spoken, oral, literal, unwritten, vocal, wordy, talkative, exact, nominal, verbarian, choral, expressed, rhetorical, said, singing; antonym (adj) written.
- **словник** 1. dictionary; *synonyms* (n) lexicon, wordbook, book, language, list, onomasticon, reference, 2. vocabulary; *synonyms* (n) dictionary, words, 3. lexicon; *synonyms* (n) vocabulary, glossary, context, jargon.
- слово word; synonyms (n) promise, news, tidings, advice, expression, intelligence, parole, password, report, statement, term, vocable, (v) formulate, phrase, put.
- **словосполучення** phrase; *synonyms* (*n*) expression, idiom, word, diction, locution, passage, parlance, (*v*) express, formulate, couch, articulate, put, enunciate.
- **слон** elephant; *synonyms* (*n*) camel, dromedary, giant, llama, monster, (*adj*) behemoth, cachalot, whale, hippopotamus, leviathan, porpoise.
- **СЛУГА** 1. servant; *synonyms* (*n*) attendant, domestic, boy, employee, retainer, follower, handmaid, help, henchman, minister, messenger, dependent, vassal, slave, drudge, 2. man (ЧОЛОВІК); *synonyms* (*n*) fellow, gentleman, guy, person, husband, homo, human, humanity, humankind, humans, individual, mankind, mortal, (*obj*) he, male; *antonym* (*n*) woman.
- слугувати serve; synonyms (v) help, act, aid, assist, attend, benefit, do, function, operate, tend, answer, facilitate, go, (n) avail, officiate.
- **служба 1.** service; *synonyms* (n) help, aid, assistance, avail, employment, ministration, ceremony, business, occupation, office, (v) overhaul, serve, refit, assist, attendance, **2.** job; *synonyms* (n) chore, position, work, assignment, career, duty, matter, post, task, concern,

- function, labor, line, mission, profession, 3. employment; synonyms (n) trade, use, engagement, service, exploitation, avocation, berth, exercise, utilization, appointment, (v) application, employ, calling, affair, (adj) job; antonym (n) unemployment, 4. employ; synonyms (v) apply, consume, engage, exploit, hire, wield, busy, exert, occupy, ply, retain, spend, take, utilize, commit; antonyms (v) fire, dismiss, 5. duty; synonyms (n) commitment, charge, obligation, dues. must, part, responsibility, tax, custom, assessment, commission, debt, deference, impost, toll, **6**. corps; synonyms (n) brigade, company, army, battalion, detachment, regiment, troop, crew, party, band, column, force, garrison, host, battalia, 7. office; synonyms (n) agency, division, authority, bureau, place, location, establishment, department, role, situation, spot, lieu, attitude, care, (adj) clerical.
- службовець 1. employee; synonyms (n) clerk, laborer, hand, worker, apprentice, assistant, helper, drudge, labor, beginner, breadwinner, cog, convert, craftsman, flunky; antonym (n) employer, 2. Officer; synonyms (n) captain, administrator, commander, bureaucrat, executive, officeholder, official, agent, manager, leader, policeman, representative, skipper, supervisor, 3. official; synonyms (adj) formal, functional, regular, proper, sanctioned, magisterial, authorized, ceremonial, legal, (n) officer, minister, functionary, (v) authoritative, administrative, authentic; antonyms (adj) unofficial, private, illegal, informal, 4. servant; synonyms (n) attendant, domestic, boy, employee, retainer, follower, handmaid, help, henchman, messenger, dependent, vassal, slave, handmaiden.
- **службовий** 1. official; *synonyms* (*adj*) formal, functional, regular, proper, sanctioned, magisterial, (*n*) officer, minister, bureaucrat, executive, functionary, administrator, (*v*) authoritative, administrative, authentic; *antonyms* (*adj*) unofficial, private, illegal, informal, 2. ministerial; *synonyms* (*adj*) clerical, pastoral, priestly, sacerdotal, subservient, theocratic, ministral, prelatical, religious, attendant, contributive, serving.
- служитель servant; synonyms (n) attendant, domestic, boy, employee, retainer, follower, handmaid, help, henchman, minister, messenger, dependent, vassal, slave, drudge.
- **СЛУЖИТИ 1**. Serve; *synonyms* (*v*) help, act, aid, assist, attend, benefit, do, function, operate, tend, answer, facilitate, go, (*n*) avail, officiate, **2**. work (робота); *synonyms* (*n*) exercise, business, employment, task, action, book, composition, (*v*) labor, toil, cultivate, exploit, ferment, form, (*adj*) job, trade; *antonyms* (*v*) idle, malfunction.
- **служниця** 1. girl; *synonyms* (n) damsel, lady, daughter, fille, lass, maid, wench, virgin, quean, female, girlfriend, woman, 2. maid; *synonyms* (n) amah, domestic, girl, housemaid, maiden, maidservant, servant.
- c.nyx 1. hearing; synonyms (n) audition, earshot, ear, trial, consultation, sound, reach, examination, inquiry, interview, listening, earreach, (adj) audience, auditory; antonym (adj) deaf, 2. ear (Byxo); synonyms (n) auricle, handle, hearing, lug, spike, capitulum, heed,

- earing, notice, crown, pinna, appreciation, discrimination, favor, (*v*) cultivate.
- слухання hearing; synonyms (n) audition, earshot, ear, trial, consultation, sound, reach, examination, inquiry, interview, listening, earreach, (adj) audience, auditory; antonym (adj) deaf.
- **слухати** 1. listen; *synonyms* (*v*) hark, hear, attend, hearken, heed, harken, list, mind, concentrate, incline, 2. hear; *synonyms* (*v*) discover, apprehend, understand, catch, examine, learn, listen, overhear, see, try, find, get, comprehend, gather, judge.
- **слухатися 1.** obey; *synonyms* (*v*) follow, comply, mind, heed, listen, keep, fulfill, hear, conform, serve, mark, observe, respect, submit; *antonyms* (*v*) disobey, break, defy, **2.** listen; *synonyms* (*v*) hark, attend, hearken, harken, list, concentrate, incline.
- СЛУХНЯНИЙ kind; synonyms (n) form, helpful, sort, benign, brand, breed, class, gentle, type, variety, (adj) friendly, generous, good, humane, affectionate; antonyms (adj) unkind, callous, cruel, hardhearted, mean, merciless, nasty, spiteful, uncaring, upsetting, disagreeable, unfeeling.
- **слухняність** obedience; *synonyms* (n) compliance, meekness, deference, obeisance, submission, acquiescence, bow, loyalty, observance; *antonyms* (n) disobedience, defiance, naughtiness, resistance.
- **слушний** favourable; *synonyms* (*adj*) advantageous, auspicious, encouraging, favorable, lucky, opportune, prosperous, comfortable, easy, booming, flourishing, golden, halcyon, prospering, roaring.
- **сльоза** tear; *synonyms* (n) split, rupture, rent, (v) break, rip, crack, pull, rend, lacerate, race, run, rush, slit, rive, cleave
- **Слюсар** smith; *synonyms* (n) metalworker, architect, artificer, artist, bricklayer, builder, maker, manufacturer, mason, craftsman.
- CMaκ taste; synonyms (n) bit, flavor, liking, morsel, penchant, appetite, drink, drop, fondness, gusto, (v) relish, savor, sample, smack, discernment; antonyms (n) dislike, tastelessness.
- **смакувати** discuss; *synonyms* (*v*) argue, debate, agitate, consult, deliberate, canvass, discourse, dispute, mention, moot, negotiate, reason, converse, weigh, controvert.
- **смачний** nice; *synonyms* (*adj*) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, correct, decent, delicate, difficult; *antonyms* (*adj*) unpleasant, horrible.
- **смертельний 1.** deadly; *synonyms* (*adj*) baneful, deathly, destructive, fatal, lethal, mortal, pernicious, toxic, virulent, noxious, pestilent, poisonous, baleful, boring, (v) dead; *antonym* (*adj*) harmless, **2.** lethal; *synonyms* (*adj*) deadly, murderous, venomous.
- **смертельно** deadly; *synonyms* (*adj*) baneful, deathly, destructive, fatal, lethal, mortal, pernicious, toxic, virulent, noxious, pestilent, poisonous, baleful, boring, (*v*) dead; *antonym* (*adj*) harmless.
- **смертність** mortality; *synonyms* (*n*) fatality, death, flesh, humanity, mankind, deathrate, morbidity, (*adj*) caducity, fugacity, impermanence; *antonym* (*n*) immortality.

- смертоносний lethal; synonyms (adj) fatal, deadly, deathly, mortal, murderous, noxious, pernicious, pestilent, virulent, poisonous, toxic, venomous; antonym (adj) harmless.
- **смерть** death; *synonyms* (n) demise, end, expiration, close, exit, cessation, decease, departure, dissolution, doom, dying, fate, loss, mortality, passing; *antonyms* (n) birth, existence, delivery.
- **CMETAHA** Cream; *synonyms* (*n*) pick, ointment, prime, balm, top, liniment, elite, fat, salve, unguent, (*adj*) flower, milk, (*v*) best, skim, ream.
- **CMUKATU** pull; *synonyms* (v) drag, draw, draught, pluck, attract, haul, jerk, tug, pick, make, force, hale, (n) wrench, attraction, effort; *antonyms* (v) push, repel.
- **смиренний** humble; *synonyms* (*adj*) base, docile, low, lowly, modest, unassuming, baseborn, (*v*) degrade, demean, disgrace, abase, debase, humiliate, mortify, conquer; *antonyms* (*adj*) grand, arrogant, conceited, haughty, imposing, impressive, pompous, snooty.
- CMHCJI 1. sound; *synonyms* (n) echo, peal, (v) ring, chime, fast, (adj) reasonable, complete, healthy, fit, good, just, rational, right, sane, sensible; *antonyms* (n) silence, (adj) illogical, unsound, confused, 2. sense; *synonyms* (n) intelligence, perception, meaning, sensation, logic, awareness, experience, feeling, idea, impression, notion, (v) feel, intellect, mind, perceive; *antonyms* (n) garbage, ludicrousness, nonsense, stupidity, foolishness, gibberish.
- CMHYOK 1. bow; synonyms (n) arc, curve, obeisance, turn, curvature, (v) bend, arch, stoop, duck, buckle, crouch, incline, kowtow, crook, defer, 2. stick; synonyms (n) bar, club, (v) adhere, stab, attach, cling, fix, paste, staff, cohere, affix, bind, cleave, fasten, hold.
- сміливий 1. brave; synonyms (adj) adventurous, bold, audacious, courageous, endure, fearless, hardy, intrepid, valiant, virile, confident, daring, dauntless, (v) defy, confront; antonyms (adj) cowardly, frightened, gutless, pathetic, (n) timid, 2. game; synonyms (n) amusement, fun, entertainment, competition, contest, diversion, match, play, prey, quarry, sport, (adj) brave, (v) bet, gamble, wager, 3. hardy; synonyms (adj) sturdy, hard, manly, strong, gallant, robust, stout, forcible, doughty, firm, mighty, resilient, tough, vigorous, (n) rugged; antonym (adj) weak, 4. bold; synonyms (adj) resolute, arrogant, barefaced, heroic, spirited, stalwart, bluff, brazen, cheeky, defiant, disrespectful, enterprising, forward, impudent, obvious; antonym (adj) modest.
- **CMIJIBICT5** courage; *synonyms* (*n*) bravery, audacity, fortitude, backbone, boldness, gallantry, heroism, mettle, nerve, spirit, valor, chivalry, manhood, courageousness, determination; *antonym* (*n*) cowardice.
- **CMITH** dare; *synonyms* (v) defy, brave, hazard, confront, resist, risk, disobey, (n) challenge, venture, adventure, daring, defiance.
- **CMITTH 1.** Waste; *synonyms* (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; *antonyms* (v) conserve, save, **2.** dirt; *synonyms* (n) soil, dust, filth, grime, crap, ground, mire, scandal, contamination, smudge, dirtiness, foulness, impurity, land, muck, **3.** rubbish; *synonyms* (n) garbage, litter,

- nonsense, junk, offal, debris, drivel, hogwash, trumpery, waste, dirt, falderal, absurdity, folderol, (*adj*) bosh; *antonym* (*n*) sense.
- cMix 1. laughter; synonyms (n) amusement, fun, laugh, merriment, hilarity, mirth, derision, happiness; antonym (n) sadness, 2. laugh; synonyms (n) chuckle, chortle, jest, gag, jape, laughter, cackle, sneer, scream, (v) joke, giggle, smile, titter, snicker, beam; antonym (v) cry.
- сміховинний 1. ridiculous; synonyms (adj) absurd, foolish, preposterous, funny, laughable, ludicrous, comical, farcical, inane, nonsensical, amusing, comic, derisory, droll, irrational; antonyms (adj) sensible, inspiring, reasonable, 2. screaming; synonyms (adj) garish, loud, uproarious, showy, gaudy, noisy, blatant, conspicuous, tawdry, blaring, (n) scream, screech, screeching, shriek, shrieking; antonym (adj) low.
- смішний 1. funny; synonyms (adj) comical, amusing, droll, eccentric, facetious, fishy, peculiar, strange, diverting, comic, curious, entertaining, farcical, humorous, (adv) funnily; antonyms (adj) serious, grave,
   2. amusing; synonyms (adj) funny, fun, pleasant, agreeable, enjoyable, hilarious, laughable, pleasing, risible, readable, amusive, charming, delightful, interesting, (n) witty; antonyms (adj) dull, boring, tragic,
   3. comic; synonyms (adj) burlesque, absurd, ludicrous, jocular, merry, ridiculous, (n) clown, comedian, joker, buffoon, jester, zany, magazine, wag,
   4. ridiculous; synonyms (adj) foolish, preposterous, inane, nonsensical, derisory, irrational, outrageous, silly, inconsistent, grotesque, crazy, daft, extravagant, incongruous, senseless; antonyms (adj) sensible, inspiring, reasonable.
- cMISTHCS laugh; synonyms (n) chuckle, chortle, jest, gag, jape, laughter, cackle, sneer, scream, (v) joke, giggle, smile, titter, snicker, beam; antonym (v) cry.
- **смоківниця** fig; *synonyms* (*n*) figure, anatomy, bod, build, chassis, design, digit, foutra, flesh, image, name, number, (*adj*) pin, straw, rush.
- **CMOKTATU** nurse; *synonyms* (*n*) nurture, doctor, amah, (*v*) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- **смола** thus; *synonyms* (*adv*) therefore, then, consequently, so, hence, accordingly, thence, ergo, thusly.
- **смолити** pitch; *synonyms* (n) degree, dip, slant, slope, (v) fling, cast, chuck, lurch, tilt, toss, heave, hurl, throw, careen, launch.
- **смолоскип** torch; *synonyms* (n) flashlight, brand, light, blowlamp, blowtorch, incendiary, teade, triggerman, (v) burn
- CMYFA 1. width; synonyms (n) breadth, extent, latitude, length, size, wideness, broadness, amplitude, dimension, distance, thickness, measurement, area, depth, height; antonym (n) thinness, 2. strip; synonyms (n) band, slip, (v) deprive, despoil, divest, peel, plunder, rifle, denude, ransack, pillage, pluck, pare, sack, bare; antonyms (v) dress, decorate.
- **CMYTOK 1.** SOFTOW; *synonyms* (n) grief, mourning, regret, sadness, anguish, contrition, heartache, misery, penitence, remorse, repentance, (adj) distress, (v) mourn, lament, grieve; **antonyms** (n) joy, delight, happiness, **2**. sadness; **synonyms** (n) depression, melancholy, desolation, sorrow, despondency, gloom, affliction,

- dejection, gloominess, unhappiness, bereavement, mournfulness, heaviness, pity, woe; *antonyms* (n) amusement, cheerfulness, laughter.
- **СНАРЯ**Д shell; *synonyms* (*n*) peel, rind, bullet, case, casing, sheath, bark, carcass, crust, shot, (*v*) bomb, bombard, husk, pod, blast.
- **CHUTHCS** dream; *synonyms* (n) daydream, aspiration, ambition, vision, desire, fantasy, figment, nightmare, reverie, sleep, coma, trance, notion, (v) imagine, muse; *antonym* (n) reality.
- CHİF SnOW; synonyms (n) cocaine, coke, precipitation, snowfall, bark, barque, brig, cocain, ship, (v) beguile, overwhelm, bamboozle, hoodwink.
- **chiдahoκ** breakfast; *synonyms* (n) banquet, dejeuner, feast, meal, mealtime, brunch, dinner, supper, (ν) lunch, sup, dine, eat.
- **снідати** breakfast; *synonyms* (*n*) banquet, dejeuner, feast, meal, mealtime, brunch, dinner, supper, (*v*) lunch, sup, dine, eat.
- **coбaκa** dog (πec); *synonyms* (n) cur, andiron, blackguard, click, detent, cad, cock, (v) chase, hound, beset, hunt, tail, track, trail, course.
- co6op cathedral; synonyms (n) church, minster, temple, basilica, chantry, chapel, conventicle, kirk, meetinghouse, oratory, tabernacle, (adj) cathedralic, official, parochial.
- **coba** oWl; *synonyms* (n) hooter, booby, dolt, looby, nizy, noddy, nonny, noodle, howlet, awl, beak, burglar, honker, horn, nozzle.
- **COBICTL** conscience; *synonyms* (*n*) shame, scruple, principles, bosom, compunction, duty, ethics, inwit, obligation, principle, qualm, regret, (*adj*) abandoned, (*v*) absolve, acquit.
- **COBOK** slice; *synonyms* (n) share, part, section, bit, chip, gash, morsel, piece, slab, chunk, portion, (v) cut, slash, carve, lacerate.
- **сойка** jay; *synonyms* (*n*) chough, crow, jackdaw, raven, rook, (*v*) magpie, parrot, poll.
- **сокира** axe; *synonyms* (n) knife, blade, (v) ax, chop, abort, destroy.
- **солдат** soldier; *synonyms* (*n*) fighter, warrior, champion, swordsman, adventurer, assassin, bottle, cutthroat, fencer, gangster, murderer, recruit, sworder, warfarer, airman
- **солідарність** solidarity; *synonyms* (*n*) community, fellowship, cooperation, sodality, unity, body, friendship, coherence, amity, collaboration, companionship, company, comradeship, (*adj*) solidity.
- **солідний** solid; *synonyms* (*adj*) firm, dense, compact, consistent, hard, real, strong, good, fixed, massive, secure, substantial, fast, hearty, (*v*) close; *antonyms* (*adj*) soft, unreliable, loose, gaseous, permeable, runny, transparent, watery, (*n*) liquid.
- **соло** solo; *synonyms* (*adj*) single, sole, solitary, lone, (*adv*) alone, only, unaccompanied.
- **солодкий** sweet; *synonyms* (*adj*) beloved, delicious, fresh, lovely, mellow, dear, lovable, melodious, musical, pleasant, pleasing, sugary, charming, delightful, (*n*) confection; *antonyms* (*adj*) sour, acid, bitter, discordant, acidic, pungent, sharp, salty.

- **conoma** straw; *synonyms* (n) chaff, rush, stalk, husk, shuck, (v) cover, strew, (adj) feather, cobweb, down, dust, flue, gossamer, mote.
- **солом'яний** straw; *synonyms* (*n*) chaff, rush, stalk, husk, shuck, (*v*) cover, strew, (*adj*) feather, cobweb, down, dust, flue, gossamer, mote.
- **сон 1**. dream; *synonyms* (*n*) daydream, aspiration, ambition, vision, desire, fantasy, figment, nightmare, reverie, sleep, coma, trance, notion, (*v*) imagine, muse; *antonym* (*n*) reality, **2**. sleep (спати); *synonyms* (*n*) nap, doze, kip, slumber, lie, dream, siesta, (*v*) rest, repose, catnap, hibernate, nod, lodge, snooze, quiet, **3**. rest; *synonyms* (*n*) remnant, balance, pause, recess, relaxation, residue, leisure, break, respite, halt, (*v*) remain, ease, perch, abide, (*adj*) remainder; *antonym* (*v*) work
- **COHUE** Sun; *synonyms* (*n*) light, sunlight, sunshine, sunn, temperateness, (*adj*) star, (*v*) bask, sunbathe, heat, solarise, solarize.
- **сонячний 1**. sunny; *synonyms* (*adj*) bright, cheerful, clear, gay, merry, blithe, brilliant, fair, radiant, shining, shiny, happy, jovial, beaming, jolly; *antonyms* (*adj*) dark, overcast, **2**. shiny; *synonyms* (*adj*) lustrous, glossy, glistening, sheeny, sleek, slick, smooth, sunny, glassy, resplendent, silken, burnished, (*v*) nitid, splendent, vivid; *antonyms* (*adj*) dull, rough, **3**. solar; *synonyms* (*adj*) astral, astronomical, astrophysical, cosmological, lunar, planetary, solary, stellar.
- **сорок** forty; *synonyms* (n) forties, (adj) twoscore. **сором** shame; *synonyms* (n) reproach, disgrace, discredit, humiliation, chagrin, insult, modesty, pity, scandal, contempt, (v) dishonor, degrade, humiliate, abash, debase; *antonym* (v) honor.
- copoмливнй 1. humble; synonyms (adj) base, docile, low, lowly, modest, unassuming, baseborn, (v) degrade, demean, disgrace, abase, debase, humiliate, mortify, conquer; antonyms (adj) grand, arrogant, conceited, haughty, imposing, impressive, pompous, snooty, 2. shy; synonyms (adj) diffident, fearful, timid, abashed, reserved, ashamed, coy, nervous, reticent, self-conscious, backward, (v) fling, cast, chuck, (n) throw; antonyms (adj) brash, bold, confident, demonstrative, forward, outgoing.
- сорочка shirt; synonym (n) shirtwaist.
- **copt 1**. sort; *synonyms* (n) kind, type, assortment, breed, description, form, rank, variety, pattern, (v) class, group, arrange, classify, divide, (adj) manner, 2. class; synonyms (n) category, grade, position, brand, department, range, classification, course, denomination, (v) sort, place, categorize, order, assort, branch, 3. tap; synonyms (n) pat, dab, hit, bang, strike, stroke, touch, blow, (v) knock, rap, broach, bug, beat, eavesdrop, exploit, 4. rate; synonyms (n) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (v) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put, 5. quality: synonyms (n) nature, character, characteristic. condition, feature, distinction, faculty, mark, attribute, caliber, part, peculiarity, tone, goodness, excellence; antonym (adj) shoddy, 6. kind; synonyms (n) helpful, benign, gentle, benevolent, (adj) friendly, generous, good, humane, affectionate, charitable, considerate,

- genial, hospitable, kindly, affable; *antonyms* (*adj*) unkind, callous, cruel, hardhearted, mean, merciless, nasty, spiteful, uncaring, upsetting, disagreeable, unfeeling, 7. nature; *synonyms* (*n*) disposition, essence, creation, quality, constitution, humor, mettle, temperament, genus, complexion, cosmos, habit, personality, world, mood.
- **сортування** picking; *synonyms* (*adj*) careful, nice, (*n*) pick, option, selection, alternative, choice, burling, cream, filling, pickax, pickaxe, preference, pilfering, plectron.
- **сортувати 1**. grade; *synonyms* (*n*) class, place, rank, degree, order, brand, category, gradient, score, form, group, quality, (*v*) level, classify, evaluate, **2**. sort; *synonyms* (*n*) kind, type, assortment, breed, description, variety, pattern, fashion, nature, organize, range, appearance, (*v*) arrange, divide, (*adj*) manner, **3**. pick; *synonyms* (*v*) clean, gather, harvest, opt, break, (*n*) alternative, elite, best, choice, option, selection, (*adj*) cream, select. mattock, flower.
- **cocucka** sausage; *synonyms* (*n*) frankfurter, blimp, pudding, intestine.
- **COCHA** pine; *synonyms* (n) yearn, sink, (v) languish, long, ache, droop, flag, fade, suffer, decline, yen, die, (adj) peak.
- **COTHS 1.** century; *synonyms* (*n*) age, centenary, hundred, centred, millennium, carbon, hecatomb, life, cocain, cocaine, coke, coulomb, lifetime, seniority, snow, **2**. hundred; *synonyms* (*n*) century, cent, lathe, riding, soke, tithing, (*adj*) centigrade.
- coyc sauce; synonyms (n) condiment, seasoning, garnish, impertinence, billingsgate, salad, cheek, insolence, effrontery, juice, nerve, flavoring, lip, liquor, mouth.
- **coφa** sofa; *synonyms* (n) couch, lounge, bench, chair, form, stall, stool, bed, futon.
- **софістика** sophistication; *synonyms* (*n*) refinement, sophism, cultivation, elegance, complexity, adulteration, edification, enlightenment, finesse, judgment, style; *antonym* (*n*) innocence.
- **COXHYTH** dry; *synonyms* (*adj*) thirsty, arid, barren, boring, dehydrated, dull, bald, hoarse, jejune, plain, (*v*) dehydrate, desiccate, drain, uninteresting, sardonic; *antonyms* (*adj*) wet, damp, moist, saturated, soaked, boggy, drenched, rainy, sodden, interesting, fresh, humid, juicy, succulent, (*v*) drench.
- **соціа**лізм socialism; *synonyms* (n) communism, collectivism, communalism; *antonym* (n) capitalism.
- **conianict** socialist; *synonyms* (*adj*) socialistic, collective, left, communalist, (*n*) communist, philanthropist, leveler, radical, utilitarian; *antonym* (*adj*) capitalist.
- **соціальний** social; *synonyms* (*adj*) gregarious, national, companionable, friendly, public, common, neighborly, affable, communicative, convivial, societal, (*n*) sociable, mixer, party, society.
- **соціологічний** sociological; *synonym* (adj) sociologic. **соціологія** sociology; *synonym* (n) anthropology.
- **coto3 1.** union; *synonyms* (n) coalition, connection, junction, association, combination, league, merger, alliance, coalescence, confederacy, coupling, fusion, marriage, matrimony, unification; *antonyms* (n)

- separation, divergence, **2**. alliance; *synonyms* (*n*) affinity, union, affiliation, alignment, alinement, organization, society, amalgamation, bond, club, confederation, conjunction, consolidation, cooperation, federation; *antonym* (*n*) nonalignment, **3**. federation; *synonym* (*n*) commonwealth, **4**. confederation; *synonym* (*n*) fellowship, **5**. league; *synonyms* (*n*) class, fraternity, group, cabal, company, guild, party, bund, conference, (*v*) combine, confederate, band, compact, unite, concur, **6**. junction; *synonyms* (*n*) confluence, joint, meeting, interchange, articulation, join, crossroads, contact, linkage, crossing, attachment, connective, juncture, link, seam.
- **союзний** allied; *synonyms* (*adj*) akin, related, confederate, cognate, connected, united, joined, associated, confederative, kindred, linked, near, relative; *antonyms* (*adj*) rival, unrelated.
- **союзник** ally; *synonyms* (*n*) confederate, accomplice, companion, friend, colleague, partner, accessory, adherent, assistant, auxiliary, (*v*) affiliate, align, support, (*adj*) associate, coadjutor; *antonyms* (*n*) adversary, foe, opponent.
- **союзницький** allied; *synonyms* (*adj*) akin, related, confederate, cognate, connected, united, joined, associated, confederative, kindred, linked, near, relative; *antonyms* (*adj*) rival, unrelated.
- спад 1. decline; *synonyms* (n) decay, declension, decrease, dip, declination, (v) wane, drop, reject, fall, abate, ebb, fail, refuse, sink, deny; *antonyms* (n) improvement, recovery, development, growth, rebirth, (v) increase, rise, accept, flourish, improve, 2. fall (падати); *synonyms* (v) decline, descend, dive, rain, diminish, dwindle, alight, come, crash, (n) descent, downfall, plunge, pitch, cascade, collapse; *antonyms* (v) ascend, climb, triumph, win, (n) ascent.
- **спадковість 1**. inheritance; *synonyms* (*n*) heritage, heredity, heirloom, legacy, dowry, estate, appanage, acquisition, dower, genetics, (*v*) descent, **2**. strain; *synonyms* (*n*) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (*v*) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; *antonym* (*v*) relax.
- **спадкоємець** 1. heir; *synonyms* (n) beneficiary, inheritor, offspring, successor, descendant, heritor, progeny, receiver, scion, 2. successor; *synonyms* (n) heir, substitute, replacement, sequel; *antonyms* (n) forerunner, ancestor, precursor, predecessor.
- **спадок** legacy; *synonyms* (n) bequest, devise, heritage, inheritance, heirloom, estate, will, gift, leftover.
- **спадщина 1.** heritage; *synonyms* (*n*) inheritance, bequest, heirloom, birthright, legacy, patrimony, estate, dower, tradition, acquisition, ancestry, appanage, dowry, origin, **2.** legacy; *synonyms* (*n*) devise, heritage, will, gift, leftover, **3.** inheritance; *synonyms* (*n*) heredity, genetics, (*v*) descent.
- спалах 1. flash; *synonyms* (*n*) sparkle, blaze, shimmer, glitter, instant, coruscation, (*v*) flicker, twinkle, blink, flame, gleam, glimmer, coruscate, dazzle, lighten, 2. blaze; *synonyms* (*n*) glare, burning, fire, light, hell, scintillation, combustion, blazing, (*v*) flash, beam, mark, heat, kindle, (*adj*) burn, glow, 3. explosion; *synonyms* (*n*) burst, blast, boom, detonation, eruption, bang,

- fulmination, outbreak, outburst, rush, (*v*) discharge, salvo, firing, (*adj*) paroxysm, blow.
- **спалахувати** flash; *synonyms* (*n*) sparkle, blaze, shimmer, glitter, instant, coruscation, (*v*) flicker, twinkle, blink, flame, gleam, glimmer, coruscate, dazzle, lighten.
- **спальня** bedroom; *synonyms* (*n*) chamber, bedchamber, assembly, berth, compartment, cubicle, (*adj*) sexy.
- **спалювати** burn; *synonyms* (*v*) bite, glow, blaze, incinerate, scorch, sting, bake, beam, boil, cremate, flare, ignite, sunburn, (*n*) fire, (*adj*) flush; *antonym* (*v*) dawdle.
- CHACATH SAVE; synonyms (v) deliver, economize, rescue, conserve, free, hoard, keep, maintain, preserve, liberate, protect, redeem, retain, defend, (prep) except; antonyms (v) spend, squander, waste.
- **cnacu6i** thanks; *synonyms* (n) acknowledgment, appreciation, gratitude, blessing, grace, praise, benediction, credit, recognition.
- **CHATH** sleep; *synonyms* (*n*) nap, doze, kip, slumber, lie, dream, siesta, (*v*) rest, repose, catnap, hibernate, nod, lodge, snooze, quiet.
- CHEKA heat; synonyms (n) glow, fervor, summer, warmth, ardor, caloric, estrus, fire, (v) bake, burn, anger, chafe, (adj) fever, excitement, passion; antonyms (n) cold, chill, (v) cool.
- **спекотний** hot; *synonyms* (*adj*) warm, ardent, boiling, burning, feverish, fiery, flaming, fresh, blistering, eager, enthusiastic, fast, peppery, pungent, spicy; *antonyms* (*adj*) mild, cool, cold, freezing, airy, bland, chilly.
- спектакль spectacle; synonyms (n) display, pageant, scene, sight, exhibition, phenomenon, appearance, performance, picture, view, wonder, scenery, pageantry, (v) show, parade; antonym (n) modesty.
- **CHEKTP** spectrum; *synonyms* (*n*) range, gamut, rainbow, tulip, phantom, scale, (*v*) anamorphosis, distortion, illusion, refraction.
- **спекулювати** job; *synonyms* (*n*) chore, employment, position, work, assignment, business, career, duty, matter, occupation, post, task, concern, function, labor.
- **СПЕКУЛЯТИВНИЙ** speculative; *synonyms* (*adj*) risky, theoretical, academic, hypothetical, inquisitive, notional, reflective, chancy, conjectural, insecure, visionary, tentative, (v) contemplative, meditative, pensive.
- **спекуляція 1.** venture; *synonyms* (*n*) hazard, attempt, adventure, speculation, danger, enterprise, try, (*v*) risk, chance, stake, peril, gamble, endanger, bet, (*adj*) dare, **2**. speculation; *synonyms* (*n*) hypothesis, guess, reflection, venture, guesswork, meditation, conjecture, supposition, surmise, theory, cogitation, assumption, consideration, contemplation, deliberation.
- **спереду** ahead; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, beforehand, formerly, forward, onward, previously, beyond, fore, forth, forwards, on, onwards, winning, (*adj*) front, (*n*) lead; *antonyms* (*adv*) behind, late.
- cnepeuatucs 1. argue; synonyms (v) contend, oppose, quarrel, reason, altercate, assert, attest, contest, convince, debate, declare, discuss, expostulate, fight, (n) dispute; antonyms (v) agree, deny, 2. dispute; synonyms (n) brawl, conflict, wrangle, difference, question, combat, argument, contention, (v) argue, controversy, row, squabble, contradict, battle, challenge;

- **antonym** (n) agreement, **3**. contest; **synonyms** (n) bout, competition, altercation, race, struggle, feud, game, match, action, disagreement, encounter, (v) compete, war, clash, controvert.
- cnepury primarily; synonyms (adv) chiefly, mainly, originally, principally, largely, especially, essentially, mostly, firstly, basically, generally.
- **специфікація** specification; *synonyms* (*n*) designation, provision, stipulation, particular, condition, detail, description, spec, indication, particularization, case, clause, estimate, prerequisite, proviso.
- специфічний 1. specific; synonyms (adj) individual, special, concrete, exact, peculiar, precise, definite, especial, positive, accurate, clear, express, single, certain, (n) particular; antonyms (adj) universal, vague, (n) general, 2. particular; synonyms (adj) fastidious, careful, delicate, finicky, fussy, detailed, choosy, circumstantial, critical, distinct, exceptional, extra, extraordinary, (n) detail, item; antonyms (adj) careless, easy, ordinary.
- **cnequanisatis** differentiation; *synonyms* (*n*) difference, distinction, contrast, demarcation, discrimination, specialization, disparity, diorism, separation, dissimilarity, (*v*) division, addition, approximation, equations, estimation.
- **cneuia.nict** specialist; *synonyms* (*adj*) expert, specialized, specialistic, choice, luxury, premium, (*n*) authority, professional, connoisseur, craftsman, doctor, epicurean, physician, source, specializer; *antonym* (*n*) amateur.
- спеціальний 1. special; synonyms (adj) particular, especial, individual, limited, rare, different, distinguished, distinct, express, certain, distinctive, exceptional, extra, extraordinary, (adv) apart; antonym (adj) ordinary, 2. specific; synonyms (adj) special, concrete, exact, peculiar, precise, definite, positive, accurate, clear, single, characteristic, explicit, fixed, personal, proper; antonyms (adj) universal, vague, (n) general, 3. technical; synonyms (adj) technological, industrial, shipshape, technic, complex, mysterious, obscure, perplexing, profound, puzzling, rarefied, technicological, mechanical, scholarly, abstruse.
- **спеціально 1**. specially; *synonyms* (*adv*) especially, particularly, peculiarly, extraordinarily, expressly, specifically, personally, **2**. expressly; *synonyms* (*adv*) specially, distinctly, explicitly, purposely, precisely, namely.
- **спецуповноважений** commissioner; *synonyms* (n) commissary, delegate, agent, executive, official, representative, collector.
- **СПИНа** back; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, backward, (*n*) rear, (*adj*) assist, (*v*) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; *antonyms* (*n*) face, (*v*) front, oppose, advance.
- **СПИНИТИ** Stop; *synonyms* (*v*) stand, block, close, delay, interrupt, obstruct, plug, (*n*) halt, hold, stay, check, end, arrest, bar, cease; *antonyms* (*v*) continue, start, begin, encourage, permit, prolong.
- **СПИНКа** back; *synonyms* (*adv*) before, backward, (*n*) rear, (*adj*) assist, (*v*) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch, guarantee, aid, champion,

- encourage; *antonyms* (n) face, (v) front, oppose, advance.
- **СПИНЯТИ** stop; *synonyms* (*v*) stand, block, close, delay, interrupt, obstruct, plug, (*n*) halt, hold, stay, check, end, arrest, bar, cease; *antonyms* (*v*) continue, start, begin, encourage, permit, prolong.
- **CHIPATUCS 1.** rest; *synonyms* (n) remnant, repose, balance, pause, recess, relaxation, residue, leisure, break, (v) nap, remain, sleep, ease, lie, (adj) remainder; *antonym* (v) work, **2.** lean; *synonyms* (adj) emaciated, gaunt, thin, bony, lank, lanky, (v) incline, bend, list, slant, bow, careen, pitch, (n) tilt, inclination; *antonyms* (adj) fat, plump.
- спирт alcohol; *synonyms* (n) drink, juice, intoxicant, drinkable, firewater, potable, essence, gas, gasohol, gasoline, inebriant, nitromethane, oil, petrol, (v) alcoholism
- CHICOK 1. list; synonyms (n) catalog, catalogue, file, inclination, index, schedule, calendar, enumeration, inventory, (v) lean, tilt, enter, enumerate, incline, itemize, 2. schedule; synonyms (n) list, agenda, program, table, roll, chart, docket, plan, fare, arrangement, diagram, record, (v) register, book, arrange, 3. bill; synonyms (n) account, beak, advertisement, card, invoice, poster, receipt, act, banknote, check, measure, notice, (v) placard, advertise, charge.
- CПИТАТИ ask; synonyms (v) inquire, request, appeal, beg, demand, interrogate, question, take, beseech, call, charge, claim, consult, crave, invite; antonym (v) answer.
- спиця 1. arm; *synonyms* (*n*) branch, wing, bay, department, division, limb, might, offshoot, power, section, sleeve, (*v*) equip, furnish, outfit, provide; *antonym* (*v*) disarm, 2. spoke; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, radius, rung, clog, line, rule, rundle, shoe, skid, 3. needle (голка); *synonyms* (*n*) injection, pointer, awl, plunger, probe, rudder, spike, (*v*) annoy, goad, irritate, sting, rile, aggravate, gall, nag, 4. radius (радјус); *synonyms* (*n*) length, semidiameter, spoke, range, compass, scope, bore, caliber, diameter.
- CHIB 1. singing; synonyms (n) chant, apprisal, betrayal, cantation, lyrics, notification, recounting, relation, (adj) cantabile, vocal, cantatory, hymning, speaking, (adv) live, playing, 2. song (ΠiCHS); synonyms (n) melody, air, strain, cry, warble, poem, tune, call, chanson, canticle, poetry, (v) ditty, sing, (adj) lay, ballad.
- cnibak singer; synonyms (n) vocalist, musician, warbler, soloist, entertainer, artist, artiste, cantor, composer, conductor, informer, instrumentalist, performer, player, precentor.
- співати sing; synonyms (v) chant, hymn, chirp, hum, drone, pipe, twitter, vocalize, carol, snitch, betray, harmonize, poetize, squeal, (n) squeak.
- співачка singer; synonyms (n) vocalist, musician, warbler, soloist, entertainer, artist, artiste, cantor, composer, conductor, informer, instrumentalist, performer, player, precentor.
- **співвідношення 1**. correlation; *synonyms* (n) association, connection, relationship, bond, correspondence, correlativity, interrelation, link,

- comparison, equivalence, similarity, (adj) mutuality, 2. correspondence; synonyms (n) conformity, accord, agreement, communication, coincidence, concord, affinity, analogy, congruity, equality, parallel, parallelism, resemblance, symmetry, balance; antonyms (n) difference, asymmetry, dissimilarity, 3. ratio; synonyms (n) percentage, degree, proportion, measure, scale, rate, extent, fraction, grade, amount.
- **співдружність** 1. commonwealth; *synonyms* (*n*) commonweal, country, nation, state, province, society, community, kingdom, land, republic, democracy, 2. family (родина); *synonyms* (*n*) descent, household, name, breed, brood, clan, class, genus, house, kin, lineage, people, (*adj*) home, ancestry, domestic.
- співпраця 1. collaboration; synonyms (n) assistance, coaction, cooperation, alliance, concert, help, quislingism, aid, assist, association, affiliation, backing, coincidence, complicity, defense, 2. cooperation; synonyms (n) concurrence, teamwork, partnership; antonyms (n) stubbornness, competition, confrontation, rivalry.
- **співробітник** colleague; *synonyms* (n) associate, buddy, assistant, collaborator, friend, partner, brother, acquaintance, ally, companion, fellow, mate, attendant, chum, coworker.
- **співробітництво** 1. collaboration; *synonyms* (*n*) assistance, coaction, cooperation, alliance, concert, help, quislingism, aid, assist, association, affiliation, backing, coincidence, complicity, defense, 2. contribution, *synonyms* (*n*) allowance, donation, gift, offering, share, tax, effort, dues, endowment, grant, investment, part, participation, payment, present.
- співробітничати contribute; synonyms (v) conduce, bestow, bring, administer, aid, impart, provide, supply, tend, afford, endow, advance, assist, donate, give.
- **співучасть** participation (участь); *synonyms* (n) involvement, interest, contribution, attendance, complicity, communion, association, connection, affair, concert, concurrence, engagement, voice.
- **cnibyybatu** pity; *synonyms* (*n*) compassion, commiseration, mercy, condolence, clemency, pathos, remorse, shame, sympathy, comfort, feeling, benevolence, (*v*) commiserate, compassionate, sympathize; *antonym* (*n*) blame.
- співчутливий 1. sympathetic; synonyms (adj) kind, compassionate, kindly, congenial, tender, merciful, humane, agreeable, favorable, friendly, considerate, (n) gentle, caring, (v) affectionate, pitiful; antonyms (adj) unsympathetic, hardhearted, unfeeling, 2. friendly; synonyms (adj) amiable, amicable, benevolent, companionable, convivial, decent, good-natured, complaisant, approachable, accommodating, affable, close, familiar, genial, good; antonyms (adj) hostile, unfriendly, aggressive, aloof, disagreeable, distant, formal, bad-tempered, belligerent, curt, frosty, reserved.
- **співчуття** 1. sympathy; *synonyms* (*n*) compassion, pity, benevolence, commiseration, feeling, humanity, kindness, mercy, rapport, understanding, agreement, clemency, comfort, affection, (*adj*) charity; *antonyms* (*n*) indifference, cruelty, **2**. leaning; *synonyms* (*n*) inclination, bent, bias, propensity, tendency, incline,

- fondness, lean, mind, penchant, (adj) disposition, canted, inclined, oblique, partiality; antonym (adj) level.
- **спідниця** skirt; *synonyms* (*n*) border, edge, brim, flap, kilt, apron, margin, (*v*) fringe, circumvent, evade, hem, elude, sidestep, verge, dodge.
- **cni3hutucs** lose; *synonyms* (v) drop, forfeit, mislay, sacrifice, fail, clear, hurt, regress, retrogress, destroy, misplace, recede, suffer, waste, escape; *antonyms* (v) gain, find, acquire, earn, get, obtain, recover, secure, win, beat, defeat, keep, succeed.
- **cniймати** catch; *synonyms* (*v*) arrest, capture, hook, apprehend, get, acquire, ensnare, intercept, (*n*) haul, hitch, trick, bolt, clasp, grab, pawl; *antonym* (*v*) release.
- **cnikep** speaker; *synonyms* (*n*) loudspeaker, narrator, orator, president, spokesman, conversationalist, chairman, talker, utterer, principal.
- спілий 1. ripe; synonyms (adj) mature, adult, ready, advanced, good, prepared, perfect, matured, consummate, right, (v) mellow; antonym (adj) green, 2. mature; synonyms (adj) ripe, complete, aged, developed, experienced, fledged, old, due, (v) grow, ripen, develop, age, maturate, season, digest; antonyms (adj) childish, naive, unripe, young, sophomoric, (v) immature.
- спілка 1. association; synonyms (n) affiliation, alliance, connection, assembly, affinity, company, fellowship, link, partnership, society, syndicate, congress, meeting, band, (v) assemblage, 2. combination; synonyms (n) blend, union, association, coalition, league, merger, amalgam, aggregate, amalgamation, collection, complex, composition, concoction, consolidation, (adj) compound; antonyms (n) separation, (adj) simple, 3. league; synonyms (n) confederacy, federation, class, combination, confederation, fraternity, group, cabal, club, guild, organization, party, (v) combine, confederate, compact, 4. union; synonyms (n) junction, coalescence, coupling, fusion, marriage, matrimony, unification, conjunction, joint, bond, brotherhood, concurrence, conjugation, synthesis, unison; antonym (n) divergence.
- спілкування 1. communion; synonyms (n) association, communication, denomination, intercourse, alliance, faction, fellowship, sharing, traffic, conversation, prayer,
  2. intercourse; synonyms (n) communion, contact, acquaintance, coition, coitus, dealings, converse, commerce, congress, copulation, fucking, dealing, connection, (adj) familiarity, intimacy, 3. commerce; synonyms (n) business, exchange, barter, interchange, (v) trade, affair.
- **спілкуватися 1**. communicate; *synonyms* (*v*) deliver, express, impart, advertise, advise, announce, apprise, carry, commune, convey, intimate, relay, reveal, transmit, acquaint, **2**. mate; *synonyms* (*n*) match, companion, partner, associate, compeer, consort, fellow, friend, spouse, husband, colleague, (*v*) equal, copulate, couple, (*adj*) comrade.
- **спільний 1**. common; *synonyms* (*adj*) ordinary, coarse, cheap, mutual, usual, vulgar, accustomed, base, ignoble, mean, mediocre, plebeian, public, trivial, (*n*) habitual; *antonyms* (*adj*) individual, uncommon, rare, unusual, characteristic, one-off, specific, unique, aristocratic,

- exclusive, extraordinary, infrequent, 2. joint; synonyms (adj) collective, common, communal, cooperative, bilateral, (n) articulation, hinge, join, seam, connection, tie, joining, junction, (v) articulate, associate; antonyms (adj) unilateral, private, separate, 3. corporate; synonyms (adj) incorporate, incorporated, united, bodied, corporal, aggregate, combined, associated, bodily, commercial, confederate, embodied, incarnate, municipal, occupational, 4. mutual; synonyms (adj) reciprocal, joint, alternate, concerted, shared, commutual, interchangeable; antonym (adj) one-sided, 5. united; synonyms (adj) joined, connected, allied, mixed, conjunctive, undivided, conjunct, unanimous, conjoint, linked, one, coupled, together, (v) consolidated, (n) harmonious; antonym (adj) divided.
- спільність 1. communion; synonyms (n) association, communication, denomination, intercourse, alliance, faction, fellowship, sharing, traffic, conversation, prayer,
  2. unity; synonyms (n) union, agreement, concord, harmony, oneness, unison, completeness, integrity, consistency, identity, one, single, consensus, entirety, communion; antonyms (n) discord, separation,
  3. solidarity; synonyms (n) community, cooperation, sodality, unity, body, friendship, coherence, amity, collaboration, companionship, company, comradeship, (adj) solidity.
- **спільно** 1. jointly; *synonyms* (adv) conjointly, together, collectively, unitedly, mutually, **2**. together (разом); *synonyms* (adv) jointly, simultaneously, running, (adj) united, composed, stable, whole; *antonyms* (adv) individually, separately, independently, (adj) separate.
- **cnih** spin; *synonyms* (*n*) turn, twirl, whirl, revolution, roll, ride, eddy, (*v*) revolve, twist, run, drive, reel, fabricate, gyrate, invent.
- cnip dispute; synonyms (n) brawl, quarrel, debate, conflict, wrangle, difference, question, combat, (v) argue, contest, controversy, discuss, fight, row, squabble; antonyms (n) agreement, (v) agree.
- **спіраль** spiral; *synonyms* (n) coil, helix, volute, roll, spire, (*adj*) helical, spiraling, turbinate, (v) curl, loop, screw, corkscrew, gyrate, circle, bend.
- **спіральний** spiral; *synonyms* (*n*) coil, helix, volute, roll, spire, (*adj*) helical, spiraling, turbinate, (*v*) curl, loop, screw, corkscrew, gyrate, circle, bend.
- спірний controversial; synonyms (adj) argumentative, disputed, arguable, debatable, disputable, disputatious, moot, polemic, polemical, questionable, (v) gladiatorial.
- **спішний** urgent; *synonyms* (*adj*) pressing, importunate, imperative, instant, immediate, quick, earnest, critical, serious, vital, hasty, insistent, compelling, (*v*) important, clamorous; *antonym* (*adj*) trivial.
- cnimho hastily; synonyms (adv) fast, hurriedly, precipitately, promptly, rapidly, helter-skelter, carelessly, impetuously, imprudently, quickly, rashly, speedily, suddenly, thoughtlessly, (adj) headlong; antonyms (adv) slowly, carefully.
- сплата 1. payment; synonyms (n) pay, compensation, bonus, charge, cost, defrayal, expense, recompense, remuneration, installment, deposit, contribution, defrayment, duty, (adj) penalty; antonym (n) non-payment, 2. settlement; synonyms (n) decision,

- accommodation, colony, hamlet, payment, arrangement, conclusion, resolution, determination, contract, adjustment, agreement, colonization, establishment, liquidation.
- сплачений paid; synonyms (v) compensated, (adj) gainful, paying, salaried, nonrecreational, profitable, remunerated, remunerative, mercenary, apaid, compensable, hired, hireling, lucrative, rewarding; antonyms (adj) unpaid, due, owing.
- **сплачувати** рау; *synonyms* (*v*) compensate, compensation, liquidate, yield, afford, clear, expend, give, (*n*) recompense, wage, earnings, fee, salary, allowance, devote; *antonym* (*y*) owe.
- **сплетений** twisted; *synonyms* (*adj*) crooked, deformed, perverted, bent, distorted, coiled, misshapen, contorted, curved, twined, winding, wry, gnarled, tortuous, awry; *antonyms* (*adj*) straight, tidy.
- **спливати** emerge; *synonyms* (*v*) appear, arise, emanate, spring, transpire, develop, issue, occur, rise, surface, begin, escape, loom, materialize, originate.
- **сплутаний** confused; *synonyms* (*adj*) abashed, bewildered, baffled, befuddled, bemused, chaotic, confounded, disjointed, disordered, dizzy, incoherent, indistinct, ambiguous, (*n*) cloudy, (*adv. adj*) topsy-turvy; *antonyms* (*adj*) clear, enlightened, alert, clearheaded, clear-headed, orderly.
- **сплячий** asleep; *synonyms* (*adj*) dead, deceased, dormant, inactive, numb, sleeping, sleepy, comatose, departed, gone, napping, slumbering, snoozing, lifeless, defunct; *antonyms* (*adj*) awake, up.
- **сповідь** confession; *synonyms* (n) avowal, admission, acknowledgment, recognition, concession, divulgence, disclosure, penance, profession, apology; *antonym* (n) denial
- сповільнювати slow; synonyms (adj) dull, late, easy, sluggish, heavy, dense, dim, gradual, inactive, indolent, lazy, stupid, (v) slack, (adv) behind, behindhand; antonyms (adj) fast, intelligent, rapid, bright, alert, brisk, hasty, prompt, quick, speedy, hurried, observant, rushed, (v) accelerate.
- сповіщати 1. advise; synonyms (v) admonish, acquaint, inform, propose, recommend, suggest, warn, apprise, caution, exhort, forewarn, instruct, notify, offer, tell; antonym (v) oppose, 2. announce; synonyms (v) advertise, herald, declare, enunciate, proclaim, return, affirm, annunciate, broadcast, communicate, foretell, intimate, promulgate, publicize, publish.
- **сповіщення 1.** announcement; *synonyms* (*n*) annunciation, notice, advertisement, declaration, communication, proclamation, promulgation, pronouncement, release, report, statement, intimation, bill, ad, assertion, **2.** note; *synonyms* (*n*) comment, mention, remark, annotation, heed, indication, mark, attention, distinction, epistle, letter, memorandum, (*v*) mind, look, detect; *antonym* (*v*) ignore, **3.** notice; *synonyms* (*n*) information, caution, message, observation, admonition, announcement, (*v*) note, attend, discover, distinguish, find, regard, see, acknowledge, behold; *antonym* (*v*) disregard.
- **спога**д memory; *synonyms* (n) memento, recall, recollection, remembrance, reminiscence,

- commemoration, memorial, remembering, retention, retrospect, storage, store, recognition, retrospection,  $(\nu)$  mind
- споглядати contemplate; synonyms (v) consider, cogitate, meditate, muse, speculate, deliberate, look, ponder, reflect, gaze, behold, entertain, intend, mull, reason
- **сподівання 1.** hope (надія); *synonyms* (*v*) trust, anticipate, confide, expect, wish, await, look, (*n*) aspiration, belief, desire, expectation, faith, anticipation, confidence, expectancy; *antonyms* (*v*) despair, (*n*) reality, **2**. anticipation; *synonyms* (*n*) forecast, hope, foresight, prevention, hopefulness, foretaste, forethought, precaution, prediction, presentiment, prevision, optimism, (*v*) outlook, prospect.
- сподіватися 1. hope (надія, сподівання); synonyms (v) trust, anticipate, confide, expect, wish, await, look, (n) aspiration, belief, desire, expectation, faith, anticipation, confidence, expectancy; antonyms (v) despair, (n) reality, 2. expect; synonyms (v) assume, believe, demand, understand, abide, calculate, hope, suppose, think, conceive, call, mean, ask, bear, carry, 3. anticipate; synonyms (v) antedate, forecast, forestall, foretell, estimate, apprehend, divine, guess, predict, presume, prevent, intercept, envision, forebode, foreknow.
- сподобатися like; synonyms (v) corresponding, enjoy, identical, care, desire, fancy, (adj) equal, equivalent, alike, analogous, comparable, same, parallel, (n) love, relish; antonyms (prep) unlike, (v) dislike, (adj) different.
- **споживання 1**. consumption; *synonyms* (n) expenditure, decline, use, expense, diminution, exhaustion, ingestion, intake, phthisis, uptake, decay, eating, (v) tabes, attenuation, collapse, **2**. intake; *synonyms* (n) absorption, consumption, drinking, receipt, harvest, ingesta, tap, usance.
- **споживач 1.** consumer; *synonyms* (n) buyer, client, customer, patron, purchaser, shopper, procurer, payer, (*adj*) capitalist, consumerist, entrepreneurial, industrial, commercial; *antonym* (n) seller, **2.** user; *synonyms* (n) consumer, exploiter, addict, freeloader, idler, moocher, occupant, scrounger, slacker, stealer, beggar, use, (v) take; *antonym* (n) dealer.
- спокій 1. calm; synonyms (adj) quiet, peaceful, tranquil, (v) assuage, appease, cool, still, allay, pacify, easy, moderate, mollify, steady, (n) lull, equanimity; antonyms (adj) agitated, angry, nervous, stormy, wild, annoyed, anxious, enraged, frantic, frightened, intense, irritable, (v) agitate, upset, (n) agitation, 2. peace (мир); synonyms (n) calm, harmony, serenity, hush, repose, ease, agreement, amity, accord, composure, concord, coolness, heartsease, order, pacification; antonyms (n) noise, chaos, conflict, uproar, commotion, 3. rest; synonyms (n) remnant, balance, pause, recess, relaxation, residue, leisure, break, respite, (v) nap. remain, sleep, lie, perch, (adj) remainder; antonym (v) work, 4. ease; synonyms (n) comfort, convenience, rest, aid, relief, satisfaction, alleviation, lightness, comfortableness, contentment, (v) alleviate, relieve. facilitate, relax, (adj) smooth; antonyms (n) difficulty, discomfort, awkwardness, formality, (v) aggravate,

- worsen, **5**. quiet; *synonyms* (*adj*) gentle, motionless, placid, tranquilize, collected, composed, dull, harmonious, hushed, inactive, (*v*) silence, gag, (*n*) compose, peace, peacefulness; *antonyms* (*adj*) loud, noisy, talkative, vociferous, active.
- спокійний 1. calm; synonyms (adj) quiet, peaceful, tranquil, (v) assuage, appease, cool, still, allay, pacify, easy, moderate, mollify, steady, (n) lull, equanimity; antonyms (adj) agitated, angry, nervous, stormy, wild, annoyed, anxious, enraged, frantic, frightened, intense, irritable, (v) agitate, upset, (n) agitation, 2. quiet; synonyms (adj) gentle, motionless, placid, tranquilize, collected, composed, (v) silence, repose, (n) calm, hush, compose, ease, peace, peacefulness, alleviate; antonyms (adj) loud, noisy, talkative, vociferous, active, (n) noise, 3. secure; synonyms (v) close, fix, preserve, fasten, acquire, assure, attain, ensure, fast, (adj) safe, firm, certain, confident, attach, bind; antonyms (v) lose, detach, (adj) insecure, vulnerable, loose, unsafe, 4. soft; synonyms (adj) light, limp, balmy, delicate, slack, clement, faint, flabby, flaccid, frail, lenient, mild, pliant, (v) feeble, low; antonyms (adj) hard, harsh, hoarse, rough, solid, stiff, alcoholic, shrill, strong, 5. peaceful; synonyms (adj) peaceable, even, meek, silent, amicable, halcyon, serene, untroubled, bland, harmonious, restful, sedate, smooth, soft, unruffled; antonyms (adj) aggressive, tense, violent.
- cnokiiho 1. quietly; synonyms (adv) peacefully, gently, calmly, lightly, quiet, softly, secretly, serenely, silently, soft, stilly, tenderly, discreetly, restfully; antonyms (adv) loudly, noisily, harshly, raucously, vociferously, anxiously, energetically, 2. calmly; synonyms (adv) coolly, imperturbably, leisurely, placidly, quietly, sedately, tranquilly; antonyms (adv) agitatedly, frantically, histrionically, hysterically, intensely, nervously, restlessly, uncontrollably, emotionally, irritably, tensely.
- **cnokyca** temptation; *synonyms* (n) enticement, lure, attraction, bait, allurement, invitation, seduction, inducement, allure, appeal, pull, decoy, fancy, fascination, influence; *antonym* (n) repulsion.
- CHOKYMIATH COURT; synonyms (n) forum, bar, close, field, tribunal, judicatory, passage, judge, courtroom, courtyard, (v) woo, attract, invite, romance, flatter; antonyms (v) avoid, shun.
- CHOJYHATH 1. compound; synonyms (n) blend, complex, mix, amalgam, combination, concoction, mixture, brew, composition, (v) alloy, amalgamate, combine, compromise, (adj) composite, mixed; antonym (adj) simple, 2. link; synonyms (n) connection, join, joint, bond, concatenation, association, (v) tie, connect, couple, associate, attach, bridge, fasten, relate, yoke; antonym (v) separate, 3. mix; synonyms (v) intermingle, mingle, compound, confound, intermix, meld, merge, aggregate, admix, immingle, coalesce, confuse, consort, fuse, immix.
- **сполучений 1**. connected; *synonyms* (v) related, (adj) associated, affiliated, allied, attached, linked, committed; *antonyms* (adj) unconnected, unrelated, separate, **2**. united; *synonyms* (adj) joined, joint, combined, cooperative, connected, mutual, concerted, mixed,

- common, conjunctive, undivided, conjunct, unanimous, conjoint, (v) consolidated; **antonyms** (adj) individual, divided
- **сполучення 1.** communication; *synonyms* (*n*) announcement, commerce, communicating, contact, conversation, discourse, epistle, intercourse, letter, message, news, notice, report, tidings, word, **2**. connection; *synonyms* (*n*) bond, communication, attachment, concatenation, joint, bearing, affiliation, alliance, association, conjunction, knot, link, combination, affinity, coherence; *antonym* (*n*) disconnection.
- **сполучний** compatible; *synonyms* (*adj*) agreeable, congruent, accordant, congenial, sympathetic, becoming, congruous, consonant, harmonious, suitable, (*n*) consistent; *antonym* (*adj*) incompatible.
- спонтанний spontaneous; synonyms (adj) gratuitous, automatic, instinctive, natural, impromptu, improvised, extemporaneous, impetuous, impulsive, offhand, unaffected, involuntary, easy, (v) voluntary, free; antonyms (adj) planned, forced, prearranged, prepared.
- CHOHYKA 1. urge; synonyms (n) goad, spur, drive, impulse, (v) push, advocate, press, force, impel, incite, induce, inspire, instigate, persuade, prompt; antonym (v) discourage, 2. impulse; synonyms (n) impetus, pulse, urge, impulsion, motive, whim, desire, incentive, incitement, momentum, motivation, stimulus, caprice, fillip, need, 3. motive; synonyms (n) cause, ground, account, inducement, motif, reason, subject, design, grounds, object, occasion, end, (v) aim, consideration, (adi) impulsive.
- CHOHYKAHHЯ 1. motivation; synonyms (n) motive, impulse, cause, incentive, reason, spur, impetus, force, grounds, motif, provocation, stimulus, drive, inspiration,
  2. push; synonyms (n) press, thrust, jolt, poke, elbow, energy, (v) impel, crowd, jab, jostle, nudge, prod, jam, rush, boost; antonyms (v) pull, drag, haul.
- **CHOHYKATH 1**. induce; *synonyms* (*v*) attract, generate, cause, tempt, impel, bring, create, draw, engender, beget, get, infer, persuade, drive, coax, **2**. urge; *synonyms* (*n*) goad, spur, impulse, (*v*) push, advocate, press, force, incite, induce, inspire, instigate, prompt, promote, entreat, (*adj*) quicken; *antonym* (*v*) discourage.
- споріднений 1. related; synonyms (adj) germane, kindred, cognate, relevant, similar, akin, allied, associated, collateral, connected, consanguineous, pertinent, like, near, analogous; antonym (adj) unrelated,
  2. allied; synonyms (adj) related, confederate, united, joined, confederative, linked, relative; antonym (adj) rival.
- **спорідненість** 1. affinity; *synonyms* (*n*) sympathy, analogy, alliance, bond, kindred, propinquity, rapport, relation, relationship, semblance, penchant, agreement, attachment, conformity, connection, 2. kinship; *synonyms* (*n*) consanguinity, affinity, kin, brotherhood, blood, similarity, community, descent.
- спорожняти empty (порожній); synonyms (adj) discharge, hollow, destitute, bare, blank, barren, abandoned, deserted, vain, (v) drain, clear, deplete, desolate, pour, spill; antonyms (adj) full, crowded,

- meaningful, packed, brimming, inhabited, occupied, swarming, cultivated, filled, laden, (v) fill.
- **CHOPT** sport; *synonyms* (*n*) frolic, play, jest, pastime, diversion, fun, romp, joke, amusement, disport, mutant, recreation, freak, exercise, (*v*) gambol.
- споруда 1. building; synonyms (n) architecture, establishment, construction, fabric, fabrication, house, assembly, creation, mansion, structure, (v) edifice, pile, (adj) augmentative, augmenting, 2. construction; synonyms (n) building, formation, frame, organization, production, arrangement, constitution, make, making, reading, anatomy, conformation, design, development, exposition; antonym (n) destruction.
- споруджувати 1. build; synonyms (v) make, erect, establish, raise, rise, base, construct, create, fabricate, fashion, (n) form, shape, frame, construction, figure; antonyms (v) demolish, destroy, 2. construct; synonyms (v) build, compose, arrange, constitute, manufacture, produce, rear, assemble, compile, fabric, organize, cause, (n) concept, conception, notion.
- **спорядження 1**. outfit; *synonyms* (*n*) dress, garb, gear, kit, apparel, clothing, company, costume, ensemble, rig, (*v*) equipment, attire, equip, fit, furnish, **2**. kit; *synonyms* (*n*) outfit, stuff, fiddle, case, set, tackle, tools.
- **спосіб 1**. way (дорога, шлях); synonyms (n) course, method, path, passage, road, route, track, custom, direction, form, manner, means, style, fashion, habit, 2. manner; synonyms (n) bearing, appearance, demeanor, air, carriage, look, way, approach, aspect, attitude, conduct, deportment, expression, (adj) kind, description, 3. wise; synonyms (adj) judicious, reasonable, sensible, intelligent, knowing, prudent, rational, sagacious, sound, discreet, shrewd, sane, discerning, thoughtful, (n) clever; antonyms (adi) foolish, unwise, stupid, 4. fashion; synonyms (n) cut, mode, craze, fad, guise, wise, (v) construct, contrive, cast, create, make, shape, compose, adjust, adapt, 5. sort; synonyms (n) type, assortment, breed, rank, variety, pattern, nature, order, organize, range, (v) class, group, arrange, classify, divide, **6**. means; synonyms (n) expedient, agency, instrument, assets, capital, channel, funds, income, agent, contrivance, device, medium, process, property, resource, 7. method; synonyms (n) arrangement, formula, plan, system, organization, practice, procedure, routine, technique, disposition, measure, design, mechanism, policy, regularity; antonym (n) disorder, 8. mood; synonyms (n) humor, atmosphere, climate, feeling, temper, character, condition, humour, modality, state, sulk, temperament, tone, ambiance, inclination.
- спостереження 1. observation; synonyms (n) comment, observance, remark, attention, inspection, notice, contemplation, conception, consideration, perception, reflection, idea, notion, (v) note, heed, 2. Watch; synonyms (v) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (n) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (adj) vigilance, 3. remark; synonyms (n) observation, mind, commentary, word, declaration, statement, quip, annotate, (v) mention, perceive, mark, discern, detect, criticise, (adj) attend.
- **спостережливість** observation; *synonyms* (n) comment, observance, remark, attention, inspection,

- notice, contemplation, conception, consideration, perception, reflection, idea, notion, (v) note, heed.
- **спостерігання** observation; *synonyms* (*n*) comment, observance, remark, attention, inspection, notice, contemplation, conception, consideration, perception, reflection, idea, notion, (*v*) note, heed.
- cmocrepirath 1. observe; synonyms (v) celebrate, comment, notice, commemorate, mind, guard, behold, discover, follow, heed, keep, look, mark, mention, note; antonyms (v) ignore, feel, 2. sight (3ip); synonyms (n) vision, glimpse, prospect, scene, show, view, aspect, eye, eyesight, (v) aim, spot, see, appearance, descry, discern, 3. watch; synonyms (v) observe, clock, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, check, (n) sentinel, sentry, surveillance, lookout, patrol, timepiece, (adj) vigilance, 4. see (бачити); synonyms (v) appreciate, consider, deem, distinguish, know, recognize, apprehend, ascertain, catch, envision, find, hear, inspect, learn, (adj) perceive, 5. monitor; synonyms (v) regulate, control, eavesdrop, supervise, (n) admonisher, dame, ironclad, moderates
- cnocrepirau 1. observer; synonyms (n) beholder, bystander, spectator, witness, eyewitness, onlooker, viewer, watcher, commentator, student, 2. inspector; synonyms (n) examiner, supervisor, auditor, controller, investigator, superintendent, assessor, director, manager, overseer, reviewer, surveyor, visitor, administrator, husband, 3. outlook; synonyms (n) aspect, expectation, lookout, anticipation, hope, expectancy, angle, attitude, future, look, perspective, position, scene, (v) prospect, landscape.
- **спотворення** distortion; *synonyms* (*n*) aberration, contortion, deformation, misrepresentation, exaggeration, corruption, malformation, torture, twist, twisting, caricature, (*adi*) deformity, (*v*) perversion.
- спочатку 1. first; synonyms (adv) foremost, before, rather, early, (adj) best, beginning, chief, primitive, former, forward, head, initial, leading, maiden, (n) commencement; antonyms (adj) last, final, (n) end, 2. originally; synonyms (adv) primarily, primitively, firstly, initially, earlier, formerly, essentially, creatively, naturally, alternatively, autonomously, connaturally, eccentrically, freely, fundamentally, 3. primarily; synonyms (adv) chiefly, mainly, originally, principally, largely, especially, mostly, basically, generally.
- справа 1. matter; synonyms (n) event, affair, business, concern, issue, material, substance, incident, article, body, import, interest, item, (v) case, count, 2. cause; synonyms (n) action, occasion, account, basis, campaign, excuse, (v) make, breed, do, induce, allow, arouse, beget, bring, engender; antonym (n) consequence, 3. affair; synonyms (n) matter, job, occurrence, amour, duty, happening, party, subject, theme, thing, topic, transaction, meeting, affaire, circumstance, 4. business: synonyms (n) employment, calling. corporation, deal, occupation, profession, trade, vocation, work, affairs, commerce, dealings, finance, firm, house; antonyms (adj) charitable, housing, 5. case; synonyms (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, cause, (adj) patient, 6. deed; synonyms (n) accomplishment, achievement, act, feat, behavior,

- exploit, covenant, activity, document, doing, effort, fact, title, agency, certificate, 7. thing; **synonyms** (n) object, something, being, deed, entity, episode, fad, person, question, device, gadget, habit, part, piece, point, 8. transaction; **synonyms** (n) dealing, proceeding, bargain, contract, negotiation, exchange, traffic, agreement, compact, process, sale; **antonym** (n) purchase, 9. point; **synonyms** (n) place, grade, peak, nib, edge, aim, degree, dot, mark, spot, phase, apex, (v) head, direct, level.
- справді 1. indeed; synonyms (adv) actually, certainly, exactly, much, really, surely, greatly, absolutely, clearly, definitely, positively, precisely, so, truly, (int) forsooth; antonym (adv) possibly, 2. really; synonyms (adv) honestly, genuinely, real, very, simply, authentically, practically, essentially, extremely, highly, quite, right, just, (adj) indeed, sincerely, 3. truly; synonyms (adv) legitimately, correctly, loyally, truthfully, awfully, completely, fully, rightfully; antonym (adv) falsely.
- справедливий 1. just; synonyms (adv) exactly, hardly, newly, (adj) fair, right, correct, equitable, accurate, honest, impartial, barely, fit, good, reasonable, righteous; antonyms (adj) unfair, biased, wrong, 2. equitable; synonyms (adj) just, even-handed, objective, balanced, candid, disinterested, dispassionate, due, even, unbiased, unprejudiced, judicial, evenhanded, indifferent, rational; antonym (adj) inequitable, 3. fair; synonyms (adj) clear, beautiful, average, fine, sweet, comely, considerable, decent, elegant, good-looking, (adv) clean, (n) bazaar, blonde, carnival, (v) bright; antonyms (adj) dark, exceptional, unjust, partial, foul, imbalanced, mismatched, prejudiced, unwarranted, 4. even; synonyms (adv) yet, (adj) direct, equal, constant, equable, equivalent, flat, horizontal, identical, plane, regular, steady, (v) level, balance, smooth; antonyms (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, jagged, unequal, 5. right; synonyms (adj) appropriate, proper, perfect, exact, faithful, becoming, ethical, fitting, (adv) correctly, (n) privilege, law, liberty, authority, claim, (v) rectify; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, unjustified, immoral, incorrect, (n) left.
- **справедливість 1**. equity; *synonyms* (*n*) fairness, honesty, candor, reasonableness, uprightness, justness, probity, right, righteousness, law, (*adj*) justice, integrity; *antonym* (*n*) unfairness, **2**. justice; *synonyms* (*n*) equity, impartiality, judge, judicature, jurist, morality, correctness, court, umpire, magistrate, propriety, rectitude, faithfulness, (*adj*) just, principle; *antonym* (*n*) injustice.
- справедливо 1. rightly; synonyms (adv) correctly, accurately, rightfully, appropriately, properly, right, fairly, justifiably, truly, fitly, justifiedly, (v) justly, well; antonyms (adv) wrongly, inappropriately, 2. right; synonyms (adj) correct, appropriate, due, just, proper, decent, good, even, perfect, accurate, exact, fair, faithful, fit, (n) privilege; antonyms (adj) inappropriate, unjustified, immoral, incorrect, (n) left, (v) wrong.
- справжній 1. authentic; synonyms (adj) actual, genuine, accurate, real, right, straight, believable, true, trustworthy, valid, unfeigned, unsophisticated, credible, factual, (v) authoritative; antonyms (adj) bogus, fake, unrealistic, 2. real; synonyms (adj) material, physical,

concrete, literal, natural, positive, pure, native, good, absolute, certain, honest, just, sincere, (n) authentic; antonyms (adj) unreal, imaginary, apparent, artificial, deceptive, false, fantasy, imitation, insubstantial, mock, nominal, (v) pretend, 3. true; synonyms (adj) faithful, even, correct, exact, truthful, direct, loyal, precise, proper, reliable, veritable, rightful, substantial, sound, (v) square; antonyms (adj) inaccurate, untrue, 4. genuine; synonyms (adj) candid, artless, hearty, unaffected, very, earnest, intrinsic, legitimate, original, solid, clean, chaste, devout, authenticated, essential; antonyms (adj) insincere, affected, dishonest, hypocritical, replica, 5. honest; synonyms (adj) fair, equitable, decent, dependable, forthright, frank, guileless, heartfelt, righteous, straightforward, upright, virtuous, ethical, aboveboard, conscientious; antonyms (adj) corrupt, guarded, lying, misleading, disloyal, unwholesome, 6. sheer; synonyms (adj) mere, bold, diaphanous, filmy, gauzy, gossamer, simple, steep, transparent, regular, perpendicular, flimsy, (n) complete, perfect, entire; antonyms (adj) gentle, thick, 7. valid (дійсний); synonyms (adj) legal, forcible, powerful, strong, cogent, effectual, lawful, hard, competent, confirmed, adequate, convincing, hardy, logical, persuasive; antonyms (adj) unacceptable, invalid, annulled, illogical, 8. very; synonyms (adv) extremely, greatly, highly, really, completely, entirely, most, quite, truly, actually, too, awfully, (adj) much, identical, (n) self; antonyms (adv) abysmally, slightly, somewhat, 9. actual; synonyms (adj) existent, indisputable, tangible, effective, existing, extant, immediate, present, bodily; antonyms (adj) hypothetical, supposed, 10. intrinsic; synonyms (adj) inherent, immanent, inborn, internal, constitutional, integral, intimate, intrinsical, peculiar, interior, fundamental, instinctive, innate, inner; antonym (adj) extrinsic, 11. original; synonyms (adj) first, new, primary, primitive, indigenous, aboriginal, creative, early, fresh, imaginative, inventive, primeval, primordial, (n) archetype, model; antonyms (adj) commonplace, banal, copied, corny, derivative, hackneyed, well-worn, conventional, resulting, unimaginative, (n) copy, counterfeit, 12. natural; synonyms (adi) congenital, normal, crude, ingenuous. naive, raw, common, easy, bastard, born, connate, earthy, inartificial, inbred, lifelike; antonyms (adi) cultivated, refined, paranormal, supernatural, unnatural.

- **справжність** identity; *synonyms* (n) identicalness, unity, individuality, personality, sameness, character, equality, person, similarity, equivalence.
- **справи** affair; *synonyms* (n) matter, business, concern, event, job, occasion, occurrence, amour, duty, happening, incident, issue, party, subject, theme.
- **справитися** соре; *synonyms* (*v*) contend, manage, combat, deal, do, struggle, grapple, (*n*) coping.
- **справлятися** соре; *synonyms* (*v*) contend, manage, combat, deal, do, struggle, grapple, (*n*) coping.
- **CHPABHICTS** Order; *synonyms* (n) command, decree, dictate, array, rank, sort, charge, class, condition, disposition, edict, (v) direct, commission, arrange, call; *antonyms* (n) anarchy, chaos, confusion, mayhem, mess, (v) disorder, request.

- **сприймання 1**. reception; *synonyms* (*n*) receipt, acceptance, admission, entertainment, greeting, party, receiving, adoption, getting, salutation, acceptation, comprehension, admittance, inclusion, (*adj*) soiree, **2**. perception; *synonyms* (*n*) apprehension, conception, idea, notion, discernment, feeling, impression, insight, acumen, awareness, image, observation, penetration, sensation, taste.
- **сприймати** receive; *synonyms* (*v*) accept, admit, get, assume, adopt, bear, have, obtain, welcome, make, acknowledge, embrace, gather, greet, take.
- сприйнятливий sensitive; synonyms (adj) delicate, excitable, sensible, sore, tender, painful, impressionable, emotional, gentle, irritable, perceptive, receptive, susceptible, nice, nervous; antonyms (adj) insensitive, numb, hardhearted, tactless, thick-skinned.
- **СПРИЙНЯТЛИВІСТЬ** apprehension; *synonyms* (n) alarm, comprehension, dread, arrest, capture, foreboding, misgiving, trepidation, understanding, appreciation, anticipation, agitation, (*adj*) anxiety, care, (v) doubt; *antonyms* (n) reassurance, release, confidence, calmness.
- **сприйняття** perception; *synonyms* (n) apprehension, conception, idea, notion, discernment, feeling, impression, insight, comprehension, acumen, awareness, image, observation, penetration, sensation.
- CHPHTHUM 1. clever; synonyms (adj) adroit, capable, acute, able, apt, intelligent, smart, astute, cunning, expert, ingenious, quick, sharp, skillful, (v) brilliant; antonyms (adj) stupid, clumsy, unintelligent, dim, dull, inept, 2. handy; synonyms (adj) available, convenient, clever, deft, dexterous, good, accessible, easy, commodious, functional, near, nearby, practical, useful, (n) ready; antonyms (adj) useless, fixed, 3. fly; synonyms (v) escape, dash, drive, flee, glide, elope, aviate, dart, flutter, hop, hover, (n) flap, (adj) break, flit, burst, 4. smart; synonyms (adj) bright, crafty, dapper, shrewd, sly, prompt, chic, jaunty, lively, natty, neat, saucy, (v) ache, hurt, (n) pain; antonyms (adj) scruffy, shabby, unkempt, slow.
- спритність 1. ability; synonyms (n) hand, aptitude, capacity, cleverness, dexterity, faculty, power, talent, accomplishment, bent, capability, competency, expertise, flair, genius; antonyms (n) inability, injury, 2. activity; synonyms (n) action, activeness, exercise, liveliness, play, job, agency, agility, diligence, energy, enterprise, industry, life, movement, occupation; antonyms (n) inactivity, inaction, inactiveness, 3. policy; synonyms (n) course, plan, approach, insurance, tactics, game, system, method, politics, polity, principle, 4. readiness; synonyms (n) facility, alacrity, ease, eagerness, expedition, knack, preparation, promptness, quickness, fitness, maturity, promptitude, rapidity, (v) preparedness, ripeness.
- **спричиняти 1**. cause; *synonyms* (*n*) case, action, occasion, account, basis, campaign, (*v*) make, breed, do, induce, allow, arouse, beget, bring, engender; *antonym* (*n*) consequence, **2**. generate; *synonyms* (*v*) develop, bear, cause, get, provoke, create, father, produce, raise, reproduce, yield, propagate, begin, (*adj*) procreate, (*n*) establish.

- **сприяйте** contribute; *synonyms* (v) conduce, bestow, bring, administer, aid, impart, provide, supply, tend, afford, endow, advance, assist, donate, give.
- **сприяния** 1. promotion; *synonyms* (*n*) furtherance, advance, advancement, advertising, boost, encouragement, hype, preferment, progress, advertisement, cultivation, exaltation, forwarding, publicity, support; *antonyms* (*n*) demotion, neglect, 2. agency; *synonyms* (*n*) bureau, office, authority, commission, expedient, factor, instrument, means, organ, way, efficiency, activity, board, (*v*) action, act, 3. assistance; *synonyms* (*n*) aid, assist, relief, backing, charity, hand, help, remedy, service, advantage, lift, second, benefit, collaboration, (*v*) succor; *antonym* (*n*) bindrance
- сприяти 1. facilitate; synonyms (v) assist, aid, ease, help, expedite, alleviate, further, advance, abet, hasten, lighten, promote, relieve, serve, (n) favor; antonyms (v) hinder, obstruct, 2. favour; synonyms (v) choose, prefer, privilege, 3. promote; synonyms (v) encourage, advertise, develop, forward, foster, push, boost, dignify, elevate, enhance, exalt, improve, increase, plug, raise; antonyms (v) demote, discourage, 4. assist; synonyms (v) support, contribute, attend, avail, back, comfort, facilitate, succor, sustain, rescue, accommodate, share, (n) assistance, lift, (adj) second, 5. further; synonyms (adv) farther, again, also, moreover, furthermore, too, (adj) extra, additional, more, another, likewise, other, (v) accelerate, benefit, cultivate; antonym (adj) less.
- сприятливий 1. favourable; synonyms (adj) advantageous, auspicious, encouraging, favorable, lucky, opportune, prosperous, comfortable, easy, booming, flourishing, golden, halcyon, prospering, roaring, 2. fortunate; synonyms (adj) blessed, favored, fortuitous, happy, successful, well, felicitous, good, propitious, providential, advantaged, desirable, hopeful; antonyms (adj) unfortunate, unlucky, 3. profitable; synonyms (adj) productive, beneficial, fruitful, helpful, gainful, lucrative, useful, economic, fat, valuable, expedient, handy, salutary, edifying, fertile; antonyms (adj) unprofitable, dependent, 4. prosperous; synonyms (adj) opulent, affluent, palmy, rich, thriving, well-off, favourable, wealthy, bright, flush, moneyed, (n) fortunate; antonym (adj) poor.
- **сприятливо 1**. highly; *synonyms* (*adv*) greatly, extremely, much, exceedingly, very, too, right, significantly, terribly, **2**. fortunately; *synonyms* (*adv*) luckily, happily, favorably, fortuitously; *antonyms* (*adv*) unfortunately, disastrously, unluckily.
- empo6a 1. attempt; synonyms (n) try, endeavor, assay, effort, essay, offer, trial, attack, assault, adventure, bid, (v) struggle, aim, chance, undertake, 2. go, synonyms (v) come, elapse, pass, break, crack, depart, disappear, drive, run, travel, fall, extend, function, (n) fare, (adj) follow, 3. try; synonyms (v) attempt, test, prove, strive, examine, experiment, judge, sample, strain, probe, seek, taste, adjudicate, (n) shot, go, 4. shot; synonyms (n) gunshot, injection, fling, ball, shoot, picture, bang, bullet, discharge, guess, jab, missile, nip, photograph, (adj) iridescent.

- спроможний 1. able; synonyms (adj) capable, clever, competent, dexterous, accomplished, adroit, consummate, effective, expert, fit, gifted, ingenious, endowed, (n) efficient, talented; antonyms (adj) incapable, incompetent, inept, unable, untrained, weak, 2. capable; synonyms (adj) able, adequate, adept, proficient, qualified, trained, experienced, good, intelligent, powerful, skilled, skillful, strong, quick, resourceful.
- спроможність 1. ability; synonyms (n) hand, aptitude, capacity, cleverness, dexterity, faculty, power, talent, accomplishment, bent, capability, competency, expertise, flair, genius; antonyms (n) inability, injury, 2. capability; synonyms (n) ability, capableness, competence, gift, potency, potential, qualification, aptness, efficiency, endowment, might, potentiality, proficiency, skill, susceptibility; antonyms (n) failure, incapability.
- cnpoctobybatu deny; synonyms (v) contradict, controvert, decline, disavow, rebuff, abnegate, disown, gainsay, oppose, refuse, reject, renounce, abjure, contravene, disallow; antonyms (v) admit, affirm, acknowledge, claim, declare, agree, maintain.
- спростування denial; synonyms (n) negation, abnegation, renunciation, repulse, no, abjuration, contradiction, negative, refusal, rejection, forswearing, nay, abandonment, rebuff, rebuttal; antonyms (n) acceptance, affirmation, declaration, admission, confession
- спрямовувати 1. direct; synonyms (adj) straight, blunt, immediate, (v) aim, channel, conduct, address, charge, control, dictate, head, administer, guide, lead, (n) command; antonyms (adj) indirect, roundabout, circuitous, oblique, second-hand, sideways, unplanned, (v) request, 2. address; synonyms (n) accost, lecture, abode, discourse, residence, skill, speech, allocution, greeting, oration, sermon, (v) greet, call, harangue, speak; *antonym* (v) ignore, 3. head (голова); synonyms (n) chief, captain, front, point, boss, foam, froth, crown, chieftain, executive, chair, brain, commander, (v) capital, direct; antonyms (n) end, subordinate. (v) follow. 4. refer: synonyms (v) allude. apply, pertain, submit, deliver, commend, advert, impute, name, relate, invoke, adduce, ascribe, attribute, consign, 5. put; synonyms (v) place, fix, lay, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, establish, (n) deposit.
- **спрямування** direction; *synonyms* (n) administration, conduct, bearing, command, course, guidance, address, charge, control, instruction, rule, aspect, aim, counsel, (v) management.
- **CHYCK 1.** descent; *synonyms* (*n*) ancestry, decline, birth, fall, blood, declension, declination, declivity, derivation, drop, extraction, family, lineage, origin, pedigree; *antonyms* (*n*) ascent, improvement, **2.** down; *synonyms* (*adv*) below, (*adj*) cut, dejected, depressed, downward, despondent, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, (*n*) feather, fur, fuzz, (*v*) consume, devour, drink; *antonyms* (*adv*) up, (*adj*) cheerful, happy, upward.
- **спустошливий** wasting; *synonyms* (*adj*) consuming, consumptive, corrosive, destructive, drooping, (*n*)

- atrophy, homicide, murder, slaughter, abrasion, assassination, cachexia, cachexy, carnage, decay.
- cnyctomybatu 1. waste; synonyms (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; antonyms (v) conserve, save, 2. harry; synonyms (v) badger, molest, plague, disturb, afflict, bother, hassle, maraud, pester, beleaguer, annoy, beset, chevy, (adj) harass, worry.
- срібло silver (срібло); synonyms (adj) silvery, argent, white, silvern, blanch, bleach, eloquent, etiolate, facile, fluent, gray, (n) money, gold, flatware, (v) plate.
- **cpiбло** silver; *synonyms* (*adj*) silvery, argent, white, silvern, blanch, bleach, eloquent, etiolate, facile, fluent, gray, (*n*) money, gold, flatware, (*v*) plate.
- срібний silver (срібло); synonyms (adj) silvery, argent, white, silvern, blanch, bleach, eloquent, etiolate, facile, fluent, gray, (n) money, gold, flatware, (v) plate.
- **ccatu** nurse; *synonyms* (*n*) nurture, doctor, amah, (*v*) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- **стабілізація** settling; *synonyms* (*adj*) conclusive, deciding, definitive, determining, rescriptive, (*n*) sedimentation, settlement, subsidence, defecation, colonization, definition, remission, remittal, sag, subsiding.
- стабільний stable; synonyms (adj) firm, permanent, reliable, constant, durable, fast, fixed, lasting, secure, stationary, enduring, hard, persistent, solid, sound; antonyms (adj) unstable, shaky, wobbly, dangerous, precarious, rickety, volatile.
- **стабільність** stability; *synonyms* (n) constancy, durability, firmness, permanence, poise, equilibrium, solidity, balance, stableness, strength, endurance, immovability, fixedness, resistance, steadiness; *antonym* (n) instability.
- **ставати 1.** become; *synonyms* (*v*) be, grow, suit, arise, get, match, sit, come, fall, fit, go, make, turn, wax, change, **2.** come (приходити); *synonyms* (*v*) approach, become, aggregate, appear, arrive, befall, amount, descend, hail, number, originate, reach, rise, spring, total; *antonym* (*v*) leave.
- **СТАВИТИ** 1. put; *synonyms* (v) place, fix, lay, position, set, impose, couch, locate, pose, charge, pitch, arrange, assign, commit, (n) deposit, 2. place; *synonyms* (n) domicile, office, order, spot, attitude, base, job, location, situation, circumstance, (v) post, rank, station, install, put; *antonym* (v) remove, 3. set; *synonyms* (v) regulate, define, adjust, congeal, posit, (n) class, bent, circle, lot, party, repose, (*adj*) fixed, fast, secure, ready; *antonyms* (v) soften, liquefy, melt, (n) combing, comb-out, (*adj*) variable, flexible, liquid, 4. stage; *synonyms* (n) grade, phase, floor, degree, level, period, point, arena, layer, chapter, leg, gradation, stadium, (v) present, mount, 5. post; *synonyms* (n) function, pillar, stake, berth, column, employment, appointment, assignment, beam, (v) mail, enter, seat, send, bill, hasten.
- **СТАВКА 1**. rate; *synonyms* (n) price, worth, pace, value, percentage, (v) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put, **2**. bet; *synonyms* (v) gamble, play, lay, risk, venture, (n) wager,

- stake, stakes, **3**. stake; *synonyms* (*n*) bet, chance, post, interest, shaft, adventure, column, deposit, pile, bar, prop, (*v*) hazard, back, gage, support.
- **ставлення 1**. attitude; *synonyms* (*n*) position, aspect, posture, behavior, mind, notion, air, approach, bearing, disposition, mentality, mood, opinion, outlook, perspective, **2**. treatment; *synonyms* (*n*) cure, conduct, handling, management, manipulation, therapy, medication, remedy, reception, attention, medicine, method, usage, use, (*v*) treat.
- **CTABOK 1.** pond; *synonyms* (n) lake, mere, pool, loch, plash, reservoir, sea, tank, broad, lough, **2.** pool; *synonyms* (n) pond, cartel, basin, kitty, syndicate, trust, billiards, store, bank, jackpot, (v) combine, merge, associate, consolidate, amalgamate.
- CTAAII stadium; synonyms (n) arena, coliseum, bowl, field, gymnasium, area, bowlful, circle, domain, enclosure, orbit, sphere, diamond, garden, gridiron.
- **стадіон** stadium; *synonyms* (n) arena, coliseum, bowl, field, gymnasium, area, bowlful, circle, domain, enclosure, orbit, sphere, diamond, garden, gridiron.
- **стадія** stage; *synonyms* (*n*) grade, phase, floor, degree, level, period, point, arena, layer, chapter, leg, gradation, (*v*) present, order, mount.
- **стадо 1**. herd; *synonyms* (*n*) flock, swarm, drove, gang, crew, covey, mob, multitude, band, company, (*v*) crowd, cluster, drive, (*adj*) bevy, shoal, **2**. drove; *synonyms* (*n*) herd, horde, throng, group, host, legion, pack, school, troop, (*adj*) cloud, **3**. flock; *synonyms* (*n*) bunch, congregation, army, assembly, batch, pile, rabble, (*v*) assemble, mass, clump, collect, congregate, flood, huddle, (*adj*) peck.
- ctax standing; synonyms (v) stand, (n) rank, fame, importance, position, prestige, place, reputation, footing, attitude, class, (adj) erect, motionless, continuance, permanent.
- **стажер** trainee; *synonyms* (n) recruit, learner, student, beginner, novice, tyro, scholar, employee, fledgling, neophyte, tenderfoot, greenhorn, amateur, convert, newcomer.
- **стайня 1**. stable; *synonyms* (*adj*) firm, permanent, reliable, constant, durable, fast, fixed, lasting, secure, stationary, enduring, hard, persistent, solid, sound; *antonyms* (*adj*) unstable, shaky, wobbly, dangerous, precarious, rickety, volatile, **2**. barn; *synonyms* (*n*) shed, store, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (*adj*) foul, unclean.
- **сталий 1.** constant; *synonyms* (*adj*) ceaseless, incessant, perpetual, steady, continual, abiding, changeless, consistent, continuous, eternal, faithful, frequent, loyal, resolute, (*n*) invariable; *antonyms* (*adj*) changeable, intermittent, irregular, sporadic, variable, episodic, erratic, inconstant, disloyal, fickle, inconsistent, occasional, temporary, unreliable, **2.** eternal; *synonyms* (*adj*) constant, endless, everlasting, lasting, aeonian, boundless, deathless, enduring, immortal, unending, ageless, durable, eonian, infinite, interminable; *antonyms* (*adj*) mortal, short-lived, finite, **3.** steady;

- synonyms (adj) firm, even, secure, fixed, stable, cool, sedate, settled, certain, determined, smooth, (v) steadfast, calm, regular, brace; antonyms (adj) unsteady, shaky, wobbly, 4. settled; synonyms (adj) definite, set, permanent, decided, established, defined, formed, confirmed, finished, standing, quiet, done, peaceful, assured, sober; antonym (adj) uninhabited, 5. permanent; synonyms (adj) fast, perennial, immutable, indelible, continuing, stationary, unchangeable, undying, ineffaceable, irrevocable, persistent, remaining, strong, (n) perm, (v) immovable; antonyms (adj) fleeting, brief, impermanent, provisional, transitory, fragile, superficial, **6**. stable; synonyms (adj) reliable, hard, solid, sound, immobile, responsible, equable, safe, static, stout, tight, uniform, tranquil, dependable, (v) stall; antonyms (adj) unstable, dangerous, precarious, rickety, volatile.
- **СТАЛЬ** steel; *synonyms* (n) harden, blade, brand, brace, foil, fortify, sword, invigorate, strengthen, (adj) iron, adamant, (v) nerve, temper, gird.
- **стан 1**. state (держава); synonyms (n) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, place, (v) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, (adj) national; antonyms (v) deny, (adj) private, 2. condition; synonyms (n) circumstance, provision, status, standing, attitude, circumstances, clause, predicament, rank, state, term, complaint, affection, (v) aspect, provide, 3. situation; synonyms (n) employment, post, job, matter, condition, location, office, point, seat, site, bearing, berth, case, environment, posture, 4. position; synonyms (n) lay, opinion, placement, set, arrangement, situation, stance, stand, disposition, (v) grade, fix, locate, arrange, install, pose, 5. plight; synonyms (n) pledge, quandary, dilemma, guarantee, engagement, gage, scrape, troth, category, (v) engage, promise, covenant, affiance, betroth, vow.
- **стандарт** standard; *synonyms* (*adj*) model, normal, regular, accepted, classic, common, (*n*) degree, measure, average, criterion, flag, norm, rate, gauge, benchmark; *antonyms* (*adj*) unusual, unconventional, special.
- **стандартний** standard; *synonyms* (*adj*) model, normal, regular, accepted, classic, common, (*n*) degree, measure, average, criterion, flag, norm, rate, gauge, benchmark; *antonyms* (*adj*) unusual, unconventional, special.
- **СТановити** amount; *synonyms* (*n*) number, quantity, aggregate, measure, sum, total, degree, extent, figure, price, volume, body, bulk, cost, (*v*) come.
- **становище 1.** situation; *synonyms* (*n*) place, employment, position, post, job, matter, circumstance, circumstances, condition, location, office, point, seat, site, rank, **2.** state (держава); *synonyms* (*n*) nation, say, country, kingdom, show, (*v*) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, articulate, assert, (*adj*) national; *antonyms* (*v*) deny, (*adj*) private, **3.** capacity; *synonyms* (*n*) capability, aptitude, capacitance, function, intelligence, talent, might, dimension, content, endowment, faculty, gift, measure, potential, (*adj*) ability; *antonyms* (*n*) inability, incapability, **4.** condition; *synonyms* (*n*) provision, status, standing, attitude, clause, predicament, state, term, complaint, affection, ailment, assumption, case, (*v*)

- aspect, provide, **5**. case; *synonyms* (*n*) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, (*adj*) patient, **6**. position; *synonyms* (*n*) lay, opinion, placement, set, arrangement, bearing, posture, situation, stance, (*v*) grade, fix, locate, arrange, install, pose, **7**. plight; *synonyms* (*n*) pledge, quandary, dilemma, guarantee, engagement, gage, scrape, troth, category, (*v*) engage, promise, covenant, affiance, betroth, vow, **8**. standing; *synonyms* (*v*) stand, (*n*) fame, importance, prestige, reputation, footing, class, repute, (*adj*) erect, motionless, continuance, permanent, stagnant, stationary, upright.
- **становлення** becoming; *synonyms* (*v*) proper, correct, (*adj*) appropriate, seemly, adequate, decent, decorous, agreeable, apposite, apt, befitting, due, fit, relevant, comely; *antonym* (*adj*) unbecoming.
- **станція** station; *synonyms* (*n*) rank, position, seat, standing, base, depot, (*v*) place, locate, post, stand, lay, order, put, set, site.
- **старанний 1**. careful; *synonyms* (*adj*) accurate, attentive, thrifty, alert, deliberate, economical, frugal, mindful, prudent, thoughtful, assiduous, aware, cagey, cautious, (v) anxious; *antonyms* (*adj*) careless, reckless, slapdash, neglectful, **2**. willing; *synonyms* (*adj*) agreeable, disposed, ready, spontaneous, voluntary, amenable, inclined, prepared, enthusiastic, unforced, consenting, obliging, content, desirous, game; *antonyms* (*adj*) unwilling, reluctant.
- **старанність 1**. application; *synonyms* (n) plea, appeal, appliance, concentration, demand, diligence, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, call, claim, **2**. accuracy; *synonyms* (n) fidelity, precision, truth, exactitude, exactness, reliability, care, closeness, correctness, faithfulness, meticulousness, veracity; *antonyms* (n) inaccuracy, vagueness, imprecision.
- **старанно** carefully; *synonyms* (*adv*) cautiously, closely, thoroughly, deliberately, assiduously, attentively, charily, guardedly, meticulously, painstakingly, prudently, scrupulously, warily, watchfully, exactly; *antonyms* (*adv*) carelessly, hastily, inaccurately, rashly, recklessly, incautiously, indifferently, unhelpfully.
- **CTAPATUCS** try; *synonyms* (v) attempt, test, struggle, prove, strive, assay, examine, experiment, judge, sample, (n) endeavor, essay, chance, effort, shot.
- **старень** elder; *synonyms* (*adj*) older, big, adult, (*n*) senior, ancient, patriarch, boss, chief, superior.
- старий 1. old; synonyms (adj) antiquated, obsolete, ancient, former, aged, antique, elderly, experienced, outdated, veteran, archaic, decrepit, hoary, mature, past; antonyms (adj) new, young, modern, fresh, latest, novel, original, youthful, 2. used; synonyms (adj) secondhand, exploited, accustomed, depleted, exhausted, faded, habituated, hand-me-down, spent, threadbare, tried, victimised, victimized, wont, recycled; antonyms (adj) pristine, spanking, unused, 3. ancient; synonyms (adj) old, bygone, primitive, olden, antediluvian, dated, earlier, older, outmoded, prehistoric, previous, primeval, primordial, rusty, (n) elder, 4. back; synonyms (adv) before, backward, (n) rear, (adj) assist, (v) support, advocate, endorse, recede, second, stake, vouch,

- guarantee, aid, champion, encourage; *antonyms* (n) face, (v) front, oppose, advance.
- **старійшина** elder; *synonyms* (*adj*) older, big, adult, (*n*) senior, ancient, patriarch, boss, chief, superior.
- старіти age; synonyms (n) period, aeon, day, era, time, cycle, years, antiquity, epoch, eternity, generation, (v) mature, grow, ripen, develop.
- **старовинний** old (старий); *synonyms* (*adj*) antiquated, obsolete, ancient, former, aged, antique, elderly, experienced, outdated, veteran, archaic, decrepit, hoary, mature, past; *antonyms* (*adj*) new, young, modern, fresh, latest, novel, original, youthful.
- **стародавній 1**. ancient; *synonyms* (*adj*) aged, old, antiquated, obsolete, former, past, antique, archaic, bygone, hoary, primitive, olden, antediluvian, dated, (*n*) elder; *antonym* (*adj*) modern, **2**. old (старий); *synonyms* (*adj*) ancient, elderly, experienced, outdated, veteran, decrepit, mature, stale, disussed, hackneyed, late, traditional, decayed, inveterate, auld; *antonyms* (*adj*) new, young, fresh, latest, novel, original, youthful.
- crapocra 1. captain; synonyms (n) chief, head, leader, master, boss, chieftain, commander, commodore, guide, officer, pilot, skipper, ruler, (v) govern, manage, 2. monitor; synonyms (v) check, regulate, control, eavesdrop, observe, supervise, (n) admonisher, dame, ironclad, moderator.
- **ctapt** start; *synonyms* (*v*) begin, originate, commence, drive, launch, embark, spring, activate, arise, (*n*) jump, onset, origin, shock, beginning, commencement; *antonyms* (*v*) end, finish, stop, conclude, halt, (*n*) conclusion.
- старший 1. elder; synonyms (adj) older, big, adult, (n) senior, ancient, patriarch, boss, chief, superior, 2. senior; synonyms (adj) old, aged, elderly, major, predecessor, (n) elder, head, dean, ruler, sachem; antonyms (adj) subordinate, (n) junior, 3. chief; synonyms (adj) principal, cardinal, capital, arch, central, essential, first, main, primary, sovereign, (n) administrator, captain, executive, leader, paramount; antonyms (adj) minor, associate, secondary, 4. superior; synonyms (adj) dominant, better, exceptional, predominant, great, arrogant, eminent, excellent, high, higher, lofty, proud, select, commanding, admirable; antonyms (adj) humble, worse, poor, (n) inferior, subscript.
- **старшинство 1**. superiority; *synonyms* (*n*) advantage, predominance, excellence, mastery, odds, precedence, priority, preference, distinction, domination, eminence, supremacy, cleverness, fineness, majority; *antonyms* (*n*) inferiority, humility, **2**. priority; *synonyms* (*n*) antecedence, antecedency, anteriority, precedency, rank, superiority.
- **статевий** sexual; *synonyms* (*adj*) sensual, sexy, erotic, intimate, amphigonic, cozy, familiar, gross, informal, inner, internal, knowledgeable, animal, animalistic, bestial.
- **CTATU** become; *synonyms* (v) be, grow, suit, arise, get, match, sit, come, fall, fit, go, make, turn, wax, change.
- **статистика** statistics; *synonyms* (*n*) data, census, score, information, list, table, facts, records.

- **статистики** statistics; *synonyms* (n) data, census, score, information, list, table, facts, records.
- **статистичний** statistical; *synonyms* (*adj*) statistic, algebraic, arithmetical, analytic, random, arithmetic, geometric, mathematical, numeric, numerical.
- **СТАТИЧНИЙ** Static; *synonyms* (*adj*) immobile, inactive, motionless, inert, still, stagnant, fixed, stable, stationary, unmoving, passive, quiet, rigid, lifeless, (*n*) atmospherics; *antonym* (*adj*) moving.
- стаття 1. article; *synonyms* (*n*) section, object, thing, chapter, clause, commodity, composition, discourse, entity, essay, feature, paper, report, review, story, 2. paper (папір); *synonyms* (*n*) document, article, newspaper, newsprint, certificate, journal, magazine, periodical, form, ticket, publisher, dissertation, exposition, press, theme, 3. clause; *synonyms* (*n*) paragraph, provision, rider, member, condition, prerequisite, proviso, requirement, stipulation, (*v*) passage.
- **ctatypa** habit; *synonyms* (*n*) custom, clothing, attire, character, convention, dress, garb, practice, ritual, use, addiction, clothes, disposition, apparel, constitution.
- ctatyc status; synonyms (n) position, rank, situation, caste, condition, order, circumstance, dignity, footing, grade, importance, posture, estate, (adj) place, standing.
- ctatyt 1. constitution; synonyms (n) composition, code, makeup, organization, temperament, build, foundation, character, charter, construction, disposition, formation, law, structure, (adj) nature, 2. charter; synonyms (n) hire, permit, authority, license, constitution, contract, franchise, grant, immunity, (v) let, rent, engage, lease, take, get, 3. statute; synonyms (n) ordinance, rule, decree, act, canon, edict, enactment, regulation, order, ruling, bill, pandect, proclamation.
- **CTATYS** statue; *synonyms* (*n*) image, figure, monument, statuette, effigy, bust, icon, picture, model, statua, deity, doll, dummy, imitation.
- **CTATL** SeX; *synonyms* (n) gender, intercourse, copulation, coitus, sexuality, mating, (v) arouse, excite, (adj) sexual.
- стверджувати 1. confirm; synonyms (v) affirm, approve, corroborate, establish, prove, validate, verify, clinch, assert, assure, authenticate, authorize, certify, demonstrate, justify; antonyms (v) disprove, contradict, 2. maintain; synonyms (v) continue, allege, aver, conserve, declare, defend, guard, hold, keep, preserve, bear, insist, support, sustain, uphold; antonyms (v) deny, change.
- **створення 1.** creation; *synonyms* (*n*) cosmos, production, world, composition, invention, conception, construction, creature, fabrication, formation, foundation, founding, piece, product, universe; *antonyms* (*n*) destruction, end, **2.** making; *synonyms* (*n*) creation, manufacture, devising, fashioning; *antonym* (*n*) downfall.
- CTBOPHTH create; synonyms (v) cause, construct, make, constitute, produce, beget, breed, build, compose, do, establish, form, generate, institute, start; antonyms (v) destroy, terminate.
- **створіння 1**. creature; *synonyms* (*n*) beast, being, brute, animal, individual, tool, body, entity, human, person,

- puppet, somebody, man, mortal, organism, **2**. creation; *synonyms* (*n*) cosmos, production, world, composition, invention, conception, construction, creature, fabrication, formation, foundation, founding, piece, product, universe; *antonyms* (*n*) destruction, end.
- **створювання** creation; *synonyms* (*n*) cosmos, production, world, composition, invention, conception, construction, creature, fabrication, formation, foundation, founding, piece, product, universe; *antonyms* (*n*) destruction, end.
- ctbopiobath 1. create; synonyms (v) cause, construct, make, constitute, produce, beget, breed, build, compose, do, establish, form, generate, institute, start; antonyms (v) destroy, terminate, 2. construct; synonyms (v) erect, fabricate, arrange, manufacture, raise, rear, assemble, compile, create, fashion, shape, fabric, (n) concept, conception, notion; antonym (v) demolish, 3. found; synonyms (v) base, appoint, ground, bottom, begin, cast, plant, imbed, introduce, father, launch, originate, predicate, rest, embed; antonym (adj) misplaced, 4. coin; synonyms (n) cash, money, specie, currency, piece, (v) forge, invent, mint, strike, devise, weave.
- **cTe6.πo** stem; *synonyms* (*n*) root, bow, branch, shank, stalk, stick, handle, axis, bough, (*ν*) originate, block, arrest, halt, issue, proceed.
- **стегно 1**. thigh; *synonym* (*n*) drumstick, **2**. hip; *synonyms* (*n*) haunch, coxa, loin, pelvis, (*adj*) hep, stylish, chic, in, popular, **3**. ham (шинка); *synonyms* (*n*) gammon, village, actor, dorp, hamfatter, kraal, amateur, beef, chicken, hamlet, hand, jambon, (*adj*) affected, conceited, (*v*) act.
- стежити 1. watch; synonyms (v) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (n) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (adj) vigilance, 2. observe; synonyms (v) celebrate, comment, notice, commemorate, mind, behold, discover, follow, heed, keep, mark, mention, note, fulfill, comply; antonyms (v) ignore, feel, 3. attend; synonyms (v) accompany, assist, escort, serve, advert, aid, conduct, hear, help, listen, minister, remain, (n) tend, doctor, nurse, 4. track; synonyms (n) course, path, line, racetrack, road, route, (v) trace, trail, hunt, tail, chase, pursue, dog, footprint, stalk.
- **СТЕЖКА 1.** path; *synonyms* (n) course, direction, way, highway, line, orbit, track, lane, means, alley, avenue, corridor, itinerary, route, (v) passage, **2.** walk (ходити); *synonyms* (v) ramble, hike, move, roam, travel, trek, go, (n) step, gait, pace, path, saunter, stroll, excursion, pass, **3.** trail; *synonyms* (n) trace, trudge, pathway, (v) haul, drag, hunt, tail, chase, pursue, train, draw, tow, dog, pull, lag, **4.** lane; *synonyms* (n) road, aisle, artery, passageway, street, trail, walk.
- CTEK stack; *synonyms* (n) pile, accumulation, mound, rick, mass, bunch, bundle, hill, mountain, shock, (v) heap, load, lot, pack, store.
- **стелаж 1**. bench; *synonyms* (*n*) settle, chair, court, terrace, workbench, bank, bar, judicatory, board, couch, form, judiciary, table, tribunal, **2**. rack; *synonyms* (*n*) manger, wrack, bracket, cage, stand, boot, ledge, (*v*) torture, excruciate, torment, afflict, agonize, pain, bedevil, crucify.

- **стеля** ceiling; *synonyms* (n) cap, limit, maximum, limitation, roof, top, thatch, tile, cover, bounds, restraint, capital, check, constraint, control; *antonym* (n) ground.
- CTEHД stand; *synonyms* (v) endure, stall, undergo, live, suffer, tolerate, prop, erect, hold, (n) attitude, booth, rack, base, pedestal, position; *antonyms* (v) sit, lie.
- **степінь** power; *synonyms* (*n*) force, ability, potency, authority, control, energy, agency, domination, intensity, strength, (*v*) influence, might, dominion, faculty, capacity; *antonyms* (*n*) powerlessness, helplessness, weakness
- стерегти watch; synonyms (v) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (n) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (adj) vigilance.
- **стерилізація** processing; *synonyms* (n) working, refinement, developing, manufacture, dispensation, conversion.
- стерлінг sterling; synonyms (adj) sound, fine, genuine, pure, reliable, good, excellent, natural, superlative, worthy, splendid, estimable, exemplary, (n) pound, punt.
- **стерлінговий** sterling; *synonyms* (*adj*) sound, fine, genuine, pure, reliable, good, excellent, natural, superlative, worthy, splendid, estimable, exemplary, (*n*) pound, punt.
- **стерпність** tolerance; *synonyms* (*n*) endurance, allowance, indulgence, leniency, patience, lenience, margin, permissiveness, consideration, kindness, leeway, forbearance, mercy, approval, permission; *antonyms* (*n*) intolerance, narrow-mindedness, bigotry, chauvinism, extremism
- **СТИГЛИЙ** mature; *synonyms* (*adj*) ripe, complete, adult, aged, developed, experienced, fledged, old, perfect, (v) grow, ripen, develop, age, maturate, mellow; *antonyms* (*adj*) childish, naive, unripe, young, sophomoric, (v) immature.
- CTHK joint; synonyms (adj) collective, common, communal, cooperative, mutual, bilateral, (n) articulation, hinge, join, seam, connection, tie, joining, (v) articulate, associate; antonyms (adj) individual, unilateral, private, separate.
- **СТИКАТИСЯ** clash; *synonyms* (*n*) bang, battle, brush, clang, crash, discord, encounter, (*v*) jar, fight, impact, brawl, clank, collide, conflict, dispute; *antonyms* (*n*) agreement, (*v*) agree.
- **СТИЛЬ 1.** Style; *synonyms* (n) fashion, name, form, kind, method, mode, pattern, sort, cast, class, (v) call, entitle, cut, (adj) manner, character, **2.** manner; *synonyms* (n) bearing, appearance, demeanor, air, carriage, custom, look, style, way, course, approach, aspect, attitude, conduct, (v) habit, **3.** fashion; *synonyms* (n) craze, fad, guise, wise, (v) construct, contrive, create, make, shape, compose, adjust, adapt, build, design, fit, **4.** language (MoBa); *synonyms* (n) dialect, expression, speech, diction, idiom, lingo, tongue, conversation, jargon, terminology, vernacular, voice, word, words, address.
- **стимул 1**. incentive; *synonyms* (n) encouragement, impetus, cause, goad, impulse, motive, stimulus, fillip, inspiration, motivation, spur, whip, bait, bribe, catalyst; *antonyms* (n) deterrent, disincentive, constraint, 2. stimulus; *synonyms* (n) incentive, provocation,

- inducement, stimulant, stimulation, urge, incitement, drive, force, prompt, input.
- **стимулювання** 1. inspiration; *synonyms* (*n*) afflatus, infusion, breath, encouragement, idea, incentive, inhalation, revelation, genius, notion, aspiration, enthusiasm, impulse, (*v*) illumination, impression, 2. stimulation; *synonyms* (*n*) excitation, arousal, excitement, goad, inspiration, provocation, rousing, stimulant, stimulus, motivation, kick, exhilaration, foreplay, galvanism, input.
- **стимулювати** stimulate; *synonyms* (*v*) excite, incite, arouse, encourage, enliven, inspire, prompt, provoke, animate, awaken, drive, energize, exhilarate, goad, (*adj*) quicken; *antonym* (*v*) defuse.
- **стимуляція** stimulation; *synonyms* (n) excitation, incentive, arousal, encouragement, excitement, goad, inspiration, provocation, rousing, stimulant, stimulus, motivation, kick, exhilaration, foreplay.
- **стипендіат** scholar; *synonyms* (*n*) learner, pupil, academic, student, pundit, apprentice, intellectual, brain, disciple, adherent, follower; *antonym* (*n*) dilettante.
- **стипендія** scholarship; *synonyms* (*n*) erudition, learning, lore, education, award, learnedness, letters, reading, edification, allowance, science, eruditeness, literacy, prize, (*v*) knowledge.
- **СТИРАТИ** cancel; *synonyms* (*v*) annul, abrogate, erase, expunge, invalidate, remit, revoke, abate, avoid, efface, eliminate, obliterate, repeal, (*adj*) abolish, nullify; *antonym* (*y*) validate.
- CTHCK 1. grip; synonyms (n) clasp, clutch, handle, bag, clench, clinch, clutches, (v) grasp, hold, catch, cling, apprehend, embrace, fascinate, grab; antonyms (v) bore, release, 2. pressing; synonyms (v) exigent, importunate, important, (adj) imperative, immediate, critical, imperious, instant, insistent, burning, serious, grave, (n) urgent, dishing, press.
- **стискання** 1. compression; *synonyms* (*n*) compaction, condensation, pressure, compressing, concentration, consolidation, contraction, squeezing, concretion, 2. contraction; *synonyms* (*n*) abbreviation, constriction, abridgement, abridgement, shrink, compression, convulsion, decrease, shrinkage, tightening, diminution, narrowing, reduction, spasm; *antonym* (*n*) expansion, 3. jam; *synonyms* (*n*) crush, crowd, fix, squeeze, congestion, conserve, dilemma, hole, (*v*) block, cram, bar, fill, force, gorge, hinder; *antonym* (*v*) free.
- **CTHCKATH 1.** Contract; *synonyms* (n) compact, charter, (v) covenant, bargain, concentrate, condense, narrow, catch, compress, constrict, shrink, wrinkle, abbreviate, (adj) abridge, shorten; *antonyms* (v) expand, widen, stretch, 2. jam; *synonyms* (n) crush, crowd, fix, squeeze, congestion, conserve, dilemma, hole, (v) block, cram, bar, fill, force, gorge, hinder; *antonym* (v) free.
- стислий brief; synonyms (adj) concise, short, abridge, little, summary, transient, short-lived, abrupt, abbreviated, brusque, compendious, curt, (n) abstract, digest, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) long, long-drawnout, long-winded, permanent, lengthy, time-consuming.
- **CTUCHEHHЯ 1**. grip; *synonyms* (*n*) clasp, clutch, handle, bag, clench, clinch, clutches, (*v*) grasp, hold, catch, cling, apprehend, embrace, fascinate, grab;

- antonyms (v) bore, release, **2.** pressing; synonyms (v) exigent, importunate, important, (adj) imperative, immediate, critical, imperious, instant, insistent, burning, serious, grave, (n) urgent, dishing, press.
- **СТИСНУТИ** grip; *synonyms* (*n*) clasp, clutch, handle, bag, clench, clinch, clutches, (*v*) grasp, hold, catch, cling, apprehend, embrace, fascinate, grab; *antonyms* (*v*) bore, release.
- **CTUXATU** drop; *synonyms* (v) fall, decrease, deposit, dribble, droop, abandon, cast, dip, discard, dismiss, drip, ebb, jump, (n) decline, collapse; *antonyms* (v) rise, increase, lift, (n) growth.
- cTuxis element; synonyms (n) component, constituent, ingredient, factor, substance, fundamental, feature, matter, origin, part, unit, cause, module, point, article.
- cTir stack; synonyms (n) pile, accumulation, mound, rick, mass, bunch, bundle, hill, mountain, shock, (v) heap, load, lot, pack, store.
- стійка 1. bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow, 2. stand; synonyms (v) endure, stall, undergo, live, suffer, tolerate, prop, erect, hold, (n) attitude, booth, rack, base, pedestal, position; antonyms (v) sit, lie.
- **стійкий 1**. steady; *synonyms* (adi) firm, even, secure, constant, continual, fixed, resolute, stable, cool, incessant, sedate, settled, (v) steadfast, calm, regular; antonyms (adj) unsteady, shaky, wobbly, intermittent, unreliable, 2. stable; synonyms (adj) permanent, reliable, durable, fast, lasting, stationary, enduring, hard, persistent, solid, sound, steady, immovable, certain, set; antonyms (adj) unstable, dangerous, precarious, rickety, volatile, **3**. firm; *synonyms* (n) company, business, (adj) close, compact, determined, strong, decisive, dense, rigid, stiff, stubborn, sturdy, adamant, crisp, (v) faithful; antonyms (adj) irresolute, soft, weak, hesitant, limp, liquid, soggy, 4. fast; synonyms (adj) dissolute, agile, debauched, hurried, instant, quick, rapid, staunch, brisk, colorfast, dissipated, expeditious, express, (adv) soon, (n) diet; antonyms (adj) sluggish, loose, (adv) slow, slowly, leisurely, (v) gorge, (n) binge, 5. rigid; synonyms (adj) harsh, inflexible, austere, strict, exacting, formal, rigorous, severe, stern, tense, tight, tough, precise, exact, inexorable; antonyms (adj) flexible, elastic, 6. resistant; synonyms (adj) immune, impervious, defiant, proof, rebellious, hardy, antagonistic, insubordinate, repellent, unbreakable, (v) resistive; antonyms (adj) fragile, permeable, submissive, agreeable, 7. persistent: synonyms (adi) insistent, obstinate. continuous, chronic, consistent, dogged, perpetual. relentless, unrelenting, habitual, indefatigable, abiding, perennial, haunting, (n) frequent; antonyms (adj) contained, occasional,
- **стійкість** stability; *synonyms* (*n*) constancy, durability, firmness, permanence, poise, equilibrium, solidity, balance, stableness, strength, endurance, immovability, fixedness, resistance, steadiness; *antonym* (*n*) instability.
- **стійко** steadily; *synonyms* (*adv*) firmly, stably, constantly, steady, fixedly, regularly, tightly, intently; *antonym* (*adv*) erratically.

- **стійло 1**. bay; *synonyms* (n) alcove, bark, recess, cry, harbor, fiord, sound, cove, embayment, gulf, (adj) brown, (v) yap, roar, bellow, howl, 2. box; *synonyms* (n) basket, cage, chest, package, booth, blow, carton, case, container, crate, envelope, (v) cuff, buffet, beat, fight; *antonym* (v) unbox, 3. stall; *synonyms* (n) bench, barn, carrel, compartment, delay, stand, cabin, hut, kiosk, stalling, cubicle, chair, (v) procrastinate, wait, hedge.
- cTik 1. drainage; synonyms (n) drain, drive, emanation, tapping, hydrography, (adj) arefaction, dephlegmation,
  2. channel; synonyms (n) canal, conduit, groove, duct, line, passage, trough, waterway, aqueduct, link, hollow, agent, (v) carry, conduct, convey,
  3. outlet; synonyms (n) shop, market, egress, exit, opening, store, emporium, hole, issue, aperture, emission, escape, gap, release, vent.
- **CTIJ** table; *synonyms* (*n*) board, chart, schedule, stand, list, plateau, console, platen, panel, (*v*) defer, postpone, shelve, slate, tablet, (*adi*) plate.
- **стілець** chair; *synonyms* (*n*) chairman, bench, chairperson, president, throne, couch, chairwoman, professorship, shop, (*v*) moderate, conduct, lead.
- CTiHa Wall; synonyms (n) partition, bar, barrier, bulwark, rampart, cliff, earthwork, fortification, screen, rail, barricade, block, blockade, bolt, (v) fence.
- cto hundred; synonyms (n) century, cent, centred, lathe, riding, soke, tithing, carbon, cocain, cocaine, coke, coulomb, snow, (adi) centigrade.
- ctob(yp 1. trunk; synonyms (n) stem, boot, torso, body, bole, proboscis, snout, stalk, box, stock, case, house, luggage, nose, stirps, 2. stem; synonyms (n) root, bow, branch, shank, stick, handle, axis, bough, (v) originate, block, arrest, halt, issue, proceed, arise, 3. shaft; synonyms (n) arrow, beam, pit, dart, pillar, axle, bar, lance, mine, post, ray, well, barb, pivot, (v) cheat.
- CTOBIL 1. post; synonyms (n) place, function, office, position, pillar, stake, attitude, berth, column, job, (v) mail, locate, base, enter, lay, 2. column; synonyms (n) procession, row, stanchion, file, line, obelisk, post, prop, support, series, monolith, buttress, article, (adj) tower, minaret, 3. pole; synonyms (n) perch, bar, picket, rod, terminal, axle, beam, axis, extremity, pin, baton, shaft, stick, (v) punt, back, 4. staff; synonyms (n) cane, club, employees, faculty, personnel, mace, brace, stave, court, scepter, board, truncheon, workers, beacon, (v) crutch.
- **СТОДОЛА** barn; *synonyms* (*n*) shed, store, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (*adj*) foul, unclean.
- CTOJIKK stand; *synonyms* (v) endure, stall, undergo, live, suffer, tolerate, prop, erect, hold, (n) attitude, booth, rack, base, pedestal, position; *antonyms* (v) sit, lie.
- **столиця** capital; *synonyms* (*n*) principal, city, stock, assets, cash, funds, means, money, paramount, prime, resources, (*adj*) main, primary, chief, great.
- **столичний 1**. metropolitan; *synonyms* (*adj*) urban, municipal, civic, town, public, **2**. capital; *synonyms* (*n*) principal, city, stock, assets, cash, funds, means, money, paramount, prime, resources, (*adj*) main, primary, chief, great.

- **століття** century; *synonyms* (n) age, centenary, hundred, centred, millennium, carbon, hecatomb, life, cocain, cocaine, coke, coulomb, lifetime, seniority, snow.
- **стомлений 1**. weary; *synonyms* (*adj*) tired, exhausted, fatigued, aweary, beat, languid, irksome, (*v*) fatigue, tire, exhaust, bore, dull, irk, wear, (*n*) jade; *antonyms* (*adj*) energetic, fresh, **2**. beaten; *synonyms* (*adj*) battered, overpowered, conquered, routed, overcome; *antonym* (*adj*) victorious, **3**. tired; *synonyms* (*adj*) hackneyed, weary, banal, commonplace, stale, threadbare, trite, haggard, jaded, stock, worn, drowsy, sick, whacked, corny; *antonyms* (*adj*) invigorated, alert, refreshed, original, strong.
- **СТОМЛИВИЙ** trying; *synonyms* (*adj*) difficult, arduous, hard, taxing, annoying, bothersome, demanding, rugged, severe, thorny, tiresome, tough, painful, troublesome, irritating; *antonyms* (*adj*) easy, rewarding.
- CTOM.JIOBATU 1. wear; synonyms (v) dress, endure, bear, fatigue, tire, waste, fray, frazzle, (n) clothing, apparel, attire, clothes, garb, erosion, garment; antonym (v) refresh, 2. fatigue; synonyms (n) exhaustion, tiredness, weariness, lethargy, boredom, (v) exhaust, weary, bore, enervate, fag, harass, jade, wear, drain, (adj) flag; antonym (n) energy.
- CTOMJIOBATHCS Weary; synonyms (adj) tired, exhausted, fatigued, aweary, beat, languid, irksome, (v) fatigue, tire, exhaust, bore, dull, irk, wear, (n) jade; antonyms (adj) energetic, fresh.
- **сторінка** раде; *synonyms* (*n*) attendant, footboy, usher, note, pageboy, varlet, context, donzel, (*v*) paginate, summon
- **сторіччя** century; *synonyms* (n) age, centenary, hundred, centred, millennium, carbon, hecatomb, life, cocain, cocaine, coke, coulomb, lifetime, seniority, snow.
- сторож 1. watch; synonyms (v) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (n) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (adj) vigilance, 2. tender; synonyms (adj) affectionate, painful, loving, sensitive, soft, sore, compassionate, delicate, fond, gentle, mild, (v) proffer, (n) offer, bid, overture; antonyms (adj) tough, hard, hardhearted, rubbery, rough.
- **сторона** 1. side; *synonyms* (*n*) edge, rim, faction, border, brink, direction, face, part, hand, aspect, facet, margin, page, position, (*v*) party; *antonym* (*adj*) distant, 2. aspect; *synonyms* (*n*) appearance, look, surface, bearing, expression, manner, prospect, side, view, air, angle, feature, quality, respect, (*v*) regard.
- **сторонній 1**. foreign; *synonyms* (*adj*) alien, extraneous, extrinsic, exotic, exterior, external, strange, oversea, adventitious, outlandish, peregrine, remote, unfamiliar, unknown, different; *antonyms* (*adj*) native, familiar, domestic, internal, **2**. outsider; *synonyms* (*n*) foreigner, stranger, layman, outlander, newcomer.
- **CTOCYBATHCS** CONCERN; *synonyms* (*n*) business, affair, regard, attention, anxiety, bother, matter, company, apprehension, burden, (*v*) worry, affect, care, interest, trouble; *antonym* (*v*) unconcern.
- стосується concerned; synonyms (adj) anxious, careful, interested, involved, thoughtful, apprehensive, considerate, nervous, solicitous, worried, affected,

- attentive, caring, fearful, troubled; *antonyms* (*adj*) unconcerned, uncaring, unfeeling.
- CTOCYHOK concern; *synonyms* (*n*) business, affair, regard, attention, anxiety, bother, matter, company, apprehension, burden, (*v*) worry, affect, care, interest, trouble; *antonym* (*v*) unconcern.
- **СТОЯННЯ** standing; *synonyms* (v) stand, (n) rank, fame, importance, position, prestige, place, reputation, footing, attitude, class, (*adj*) erect, motionless, continuance, permanent.
- **CTORTU** stand; *synonyms* (*v*) endure, stall, undergo, live, suffer, tolerate, prop, erect, hold, (*n*) attitude, booth, rack, base, pedestal, position; *antonyms* (*v*) sit, lie.
- **стоячий** standing; *synonyms* (v) stand, (n) rank, fame, importance, position, prestige, place, reputation, footing, attitude, class, (*adj*) erect, motionless, continuance, permanent.
- **страва** dish; *synonyms* (n) bowl, beauty, disk, plate, platter, saucer, container, dishful, bag, (v) hollow, serve.
- **страждальник** sufferer; *synonyms* (*n*) patient, martyr, victim, prey, casualty, wretch, fatality, object, target, wounded.
- **страждання 1**. suffering; synonyms (v) pain, (n) affliction, agony, anguish, distress, hurt, grief, hardship, misery, ordeal, sorrow, torment, torture, adversity, (adj) miserable; antonym (n) content, 2. misery; synonyms (n) woe, evil, ill, infelicity, poverty, suffering, calamity, depression, desolation, difficulty, gloom, melancholy, misfortune, sadness, trial; antonyms (n) cheerfulness, ecstasy, happiness, joy, fun, hopefulness, 3. pain (біль); synonyms (n) ache, bother, nuisance, harass, annoyance, discomfort, dolor, plague, (v) afflict, grieve, trouble, agonize, inconvenience, annoy, injure; antonym (n) pleasure, 4. agony; synonyms (n) pang, passion, throe, martyrdom, 5. anguish; synonyms (n) despair, bitterness, wretchedness, despondency, heartache, regret, worry, remorse, (v) fret, hell, 6. distress; synonyms (n) anxiety, alarm, disquiet, destitution, shock, damage, deprivation, dismay, exigency, (v) concern, upset, distraint, ail, disturb, embarrass; antonyms (v) comfort, please.
- **страждати** suffer; *synonyms* (v) bear, encounter, abide, accept, brook, endure, experience, have, stand, undergo, permit, receive, smart, sustain, (*adj*) allow.
- **страйк** strike; *synonyms* (n) knock, assault, clap, (v) bang, beat, hit, impress, slap, move, affect, box, buffet, bump, clout. coin.
- **страйкар** striker; *synonyms* (*n*) hitter, beater, batsman, batter, activist, campaigner, demonstrator, marcher, picketer, pulsator, slugger, dissenter, wencher.
- **страйкування** striking; *synonyms* (*adj*) impressive, dramatic, outstanding, salient, spectacular, imposing, astonishing, conspicuous, extraordinary, notable, noticeable, prominent, remarkable, (*n*) hit, strike; *antonyms* (*adj*) ugly, ordinary, unimpressive.
- CTPAHKYBATU strike; *synonyms* (n) knock, assault, clap, (v) bang, beat, hit, impress, slap, move, affect, box, buffet, bump, clout, coin.
- **crpata** execution; *synonyms* (n) performance, accomplishment, achievement, effect, enforcement,

- implementation, action, discharge, executing, doing, effectuation, administration, completion, murder, act.
- **стратегічний** strategic; *synonyms* (*adj*) important, strategical, critical, crucial, diplomatic, calculated, deliberate, discreet, main, major, planned, significant, strategetical, vital, (*v*) timeserving.
- **crpateris** strategy; *synonyms* (*n*) dodge, plan, scheme, strategics, game, design, (*v*) tactics.
- ctpax 1. fear; synonyms (n) apprehension, awe, alarm, dismay, doubt, anguish, care, consternation, foreboding, fright, trepidation, worry, (v) dread, concern, reverence; antonyms (n) bravery, confidence, fearlessness, reassurance, 2. terror; synonyms (n) fear, scare, horror, panic, anxiety, scourge, brat, shock, awfulness, phobia, dreadfulness, 3. apprehension; synonyms (n) comprehension, arrest, capture, misgiving, understanding, appreciation, anticipation, agitation, conception, detention, notion, premonition, presentiment, seizure, suspense; antonyms (n) release, calmness.
- **страховий** insurance (страхування); *synonyms* (n) assurance, guarantee, indemnity, coverage, policy, security, warranty.
- **страхування** 1. insurance; *synonyms* (*n*) assurance, guarantee, indemnity, coverage, policy, security, warranty, **2**. assurance; *synonyms* (*n*) confidence, belief, pledge, affiance, certitude, conviction, faith, nerve, poise, promise, reliance, sureness, trust, vow, warrant; *antonym* (*n*) insecurity.
- ctpaxybath 1. cover; synonyms (v) coat, conceal, top, bury, cloak, (n) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield; antonyms (v) reveal, expose, uncover, 2. assure; synonyms (v) guarantee, certify, secure, affirm, ascertain, ensure, persuade, promise, reassure, satisfy, vouch, confirm, convince, cover, (n) warrant, 3. guarantee; synonyms (n) bail, assure, guaranty, warranty, assurance, pledge, bond, collateral, deposit, security, (v) engage, endorse, sponsor, undertake, contract, 4. ensure; synonyms (v) check, insure, control, determine, safeguard, see.
- **страшний 1**. horrible; *synonyms* (*adj*) abominable, atrocious, awful, fearful, frightful, dire, dreadful, fearsome, formidable, ghastly, grisly, appalling, cruel, dismal, (*v*) horrid; *antonyms* (*adj*) pleasant, wonderful, lovely, nice, **2**. terrible; *synonyms* (*adj*) horrible, monstrous, hideous, alarming, bad, direful, horrendous, horrific, horrifying, severe, shocking, painful, awesome, desperate, great.
- ctpec stress; synonyms (n) accent, emphasis, pressure, tension, force, importance, pinch, effort, (v) strain, emphasize, accentuate, emphasise, punctuate, underline, trouble.
- стрибати 1. jump; synonyms (v) hop, spring, dive, hurdle, rise, skip, startle, clear, dance, (n) leap, bound, bounce, start, caper, curvet; antonyms (v) decrease, fall, 2. spring (весна); synonyms (n) jump, fountain, source, jet, cause, font, fount, ramp, (v) originate, recoil, proceed, arise, issue, prance, (adj) elastic, 3. bound; synonyms (v) border, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, restrict, vault, define, (adj) bandaged,

- (n) boundary, edge, barrier, compass, limitation; antonym (adj) free.
- **стрибок 1**. jump (стрибати); *synonyms* (*v*) hop, spring, dive, hurdle, rise, skip, startle, clear, dance, (*n*) leap, bound, bounce, start, caper, curvet; *antonyms* (*v*) decrease, fall, **2**. bound; *synonyms* (*v*) border, limit, circumscribe, confine, pounce, rebound, restrict, vault, (*n*) jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, recoil, limitation; *antonym* (*adj*) free, **3**. spring (BeCHa); *synonyms* (*n*) fountain, source, jet, cause, font, fount, ramp, well, run, (*v*) originate, proceed, arise, issue, prance, (*adj*) elastic.
- **стривожений** anxious; *synonyms* (*adj*) afraid, alarmed, nervous, tense, uneasy, agitated, apprehensive, concerned, distressed, fearful, frightened, keen, thoughtful, (v) jumpy, solicitous; *antonyms* (*adj*) calm, relaxed, carefree, confident, rational, unconcerned, undisturbed, untroubled.
- **СТРИГТИ** cut; *synonyms* (*v*) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (*n*) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; *antonyms* (*v*) increase, lengthen, (*n*) addition, extension.
- **стрижень** stem; *synonyms* (n) root, bow, branch, shank, stalk, stick, handle, axis, bough, (v) originate, block, arrest, halt, issue, proceed.
- стриманий 1. discreet; synonyms (adj) circumspect, prudent, careful, cautious, chary, discerning, tactful, wise, diplomatic, considerate, judicious, modest, politic, sensible, thoughtful; antonyms (adj) conspicuous, elaborate, tactless, careless, indiscreet, 2. continent; synonyms (n) land, delta, peninsula, area, boundary, capacity, circle, (adj) chaste, celibate, abstemious, pure, temperate, abstinent, sober, austere; antonym (adi) incontinent, 3. reserved; synonyms (adj) distant, coy, diffident, reticent, bashful, aloof, frigid, quiet, retiring, shy, formal, humble, moderate, unapproachable, (n) cold; antonyms (adj) outgoing, open, forthcoming, relaxed, uninhibited, warm, 4. measured; synonyms (adj) deliberate, calculated, reasonable, regular, leisurely, metrical, cool, slow, 5. modest; synonyms (adj) lowly, gentle, decent, low, meek, small, unassuming, unobtrusive, decorous, demure, discreet, mild, minor, simple, timid; antonyms (adj) arrogant, conceited, pompous, pretentious, proud, self-important, showy, spectacular, boastful, grand, immodest, ostentatious.
- **стриманість** restraint; *synonyms* (*n*) bridle, constraint, control, hindrance, limit, moderation, modesty, reserve, containment, curb, restriction, obstacle, (*v*) check, impediment, obstruction; *antonyms* (*n*) excess, abandon, decadence, incentive.
- **стримувания** 1. inhibition; *synonyms* (*n*) check, prohibition, restraint, suppression, taboo, control, ban, constraint, arrest, forbiddance, repression, restriction, (*v*) interference, collision, 2. repression; *synonyms* (*n*) coercion, confinement, cohibition, despotism, domination; *antonyms* (*n*) democracy, expression.
- **стримувати 1.** control; *synonyms* (*n*) rule, authority, care, hold, influence, sway, ascendancy, ascendency, (*v*) command, check, curb, bridle, conduct, handle, conquer; *antonyms* (*n*) freedom, weakness, (*v*) intensify, share, **2**. contain; *synonyms* (*v*) comprise, accommodate,

- comprehend, include, admit, bear, carry, confine, control, embrace, restrain, restrict, suppress, take, accept; *antonyms* (v) exclude, express, **3**. dominate; synonyms (v) prevail, reign, direct, manage, overlook, possess, predominate, crush, domineer, govern, master, overpower, overrule, quell, (adj) preponderate, 4. bound; synonyms (v) leap, border, bounce, limit, circumscribe, pounce, rebound, (n) spring, jump, boundary, edge, barrier, compass, hop, recoil; antonym (adj) free, 5. moderate; synonyms (adj) temperate, abstemious, middling, mild, easy, dull, (v) calm, mitigate, allay, diminish, lessen, ease, cool, abate, assuage; antonyms (adj) extreme, immoderate, radical, (v) increase, **6**. stay; synonyms (v) remain, reside, rest, prop, stop, abide, continue, endure, pause, arrest, bide, dwell, support, (n) delay, halt; antonyms (v) leave, change, abscond, depart, 7. temper; synonyms (n) mood, character, disposition, humor, nature, condition, anger, irritation, (v) moderate, soften, harden, modify, season, qualify, anneal; antonym (v) upset.
- **стріла 1**. arrow; *synonyms* (*n*) pointer, barb, bolt, dart, missile, gun, spear, javelin, jereed, jerid, lance, pike, (*adj*) rocket, hydrargyrum, quicksilver, **2**. shaft; *synonyms* (*n*) arrow, handle, axis, beam, pit, pillar, axle, bar, mine, post, ray, well, pivot, body, (*v*) cheat.
- **стрілець** shot; *synonyms* (n) gunshot, injection, go, fling, ball, crack, shoot, picture, attempt, bang, bullet, chance, discharge, effort, endeavor.
- **стрілка 1**. arrow; *synonyms* (n) pointer, barb, bolt, dart, missile, gun, spear, javelin, jereed, jerid, lance, pike, (adj) rocket, hydrargyrum, quicksilver, **2**. needle (ГОЛКа); *synonyms* (n) injection, awl, plunger, probe, rudder, spike, spine, (v) annoy, goad, irritate, sting, rile, aggravate, gall, nag.
- стрільба firing; synonyms (v) burst, (adj) combustible, (n) discharge, dismissal, fire, combustion, explosion, dismission, fuel, ignition, kindling, lighting, release, sack, sacking.
- **стрілянина** shooting; *synonyms* (v) shoot, hunting, coursing, (n) firing, gunfire, killing, shot, murder, (adj) sharp, acute, piercing.
- **стріляти** shoot; *synonyms* (*v*) bud, discharge, dart, dash, drive, flash, hunt, send, fire, germinate, grow, (*n*) scion, branch, sprout, chute.
- ctpiчка 1. ribbon; synonyms (n) band, riband, shred, strip, tape, decoration, medal, ribband, belt, fascia, thread, palm, fillet, string, stripe, 2. tape; synonyms (n) ribbon, rope, cassette, seal, (v) record, videotape, video, 3. band; synonyms (n) cluster, party, set, swathe, circle, collar, company, crew, faction, gang, knot, lace, strap, (v) ring, combine.
- **строгий** strict; *synonyms* (*adj*) rigid, severe, stern, correct, accurate, austere, harsh, precise, rigorous, scrupulous, exacting, hard, inflexible, (v) exact, close; *antonyms* (*adj*) lenient, free, lax, flexible, imprecise, negligent, relaxed.
- **CTPOK 1.** term; *synonyms* (*n*) name, expression, period, style, title, boundary, limit, spell, stipulation, time, duration, phrase, (*v*) call, designate, entitle, **2**. date; *synonyms* (*n*) age, appointment, assignation, engagement, epoch, meeting, era, year, boyfriend, (*v*) escort, determine, register, accompany, court, see, **3**.

- day; *synonyms* (*n*) light, daylight, generation, daytime, crisis; *antonyms* (*n*) nighttime, night, **4**. time; *synonyms* (*n*) hour, moment, measure, season, day, instant, interval, space, tempo, sentence, beat, occasion, course, date, (*v*) clock; *antonym* (*n*) death.
- строкатий 1. varied; synonyms (adj) assorted, diverse, miscellaneous, mixed, various, different, diversified, sundry, heterogeneous, manifold, motley, many, dissimilar, versatile, odd; antonyms (adj) boring, dull, homogeneous, uniform, 2. gay; synonyms (adj) cheerful, bright, convivial, festive, gaudy, airy, blithe, brave, buoyant, cheery, festal, flashy, frolicsome, (n) homosexual, gallant.
- cTpyratu 1. chip; synonyms (n) splinter, bit, flake, chipping, fleck, fragment, microchip, part, scrap, shaving, check (v) crack, cut, nick, peel, 2. plane; synonyms (n) airplane, face, aeroplane, aircraft, degree, stage, surface, (v) flatten, shave, (adj) level, even, flat, horizontal, smooth, flush.
- **структура 1.** structure; *synonyms* (*n*) form, building, arrangement, edifice, shape, constitution, construction, frame, framework, organization, architecture, establishment, conformation, composition, erection, **2**. architecture; *synonyms* (*n*) structure, formation, edification, design, carcass, engineering, planning, style, workmanship, (*v*) organism, **3**. economy; *synonyms* (*n*) frugality, parsimony, saving, thrift, conservation, efficiency, husbandry, prudence, stinginess, thriftiness, brevity, cut, (*adj*) system, array, disposition; *antonym* (*n*) extravagance, **4**. fabric; *synonyms* (*n*) cloth, material, fiber, performance, anatomy, production, stuff, textile, texture, net, work, **5**. framework; *synonyms* (*n*) fabric, framing, chassis, shell, grating, rack, setting, skeleton, draft, hull, makeup, scaffold, background, lattice, outling
- **структурний** structural; *synonyms* (*adj*) organic, tectonic, geomorphologic, geomorphological, morphologic, morphological, edificial, fundamental.
- **ctpym** current; *synonyms* (*adj*) common, contemporary, fashionable, instant, actual, fresh, modern, new, popular, (*n*) flow, stream, run, afloat, movement, (*prep*) course; *antonyms* (*adj*) obsolete, past, old, old-fashioned, previous.
- **cTpyMihb 1**. jet; *synonyms* (n) squirt, fountain, flow, spout, spray, airplane, current, outpouring, (v) gush, spurt, fly, pour, flood, emit, (adj) raven, 2. stream; *synonyms* (n) brook, river, run, rush, streak, torrent, beam, (v) crowd, jet, swarm, runnel, creek, deluge, surge, (prep) course; antonym (v) trickle.
- **СТРУМОК** stream; *synonyms* (*n*) flow, brook, river, run, spurt, (*v*) flood, crowd, gush, jet, pour, swarm, runnel, creek, (*prep*) current, course; *antonym* (*v*) trickle.
- **ctpyHa 1**. chord; *synonyms* (*n*) cord, harmony, curve, flange, enticement, (*v*) accord, harmonise, harmonize, agree, consort, reconcile, (*adj*) subtense, **2**. string; *synonyms* (*n*) chain, file, row, strand, twine, range, filament, rank, series, thread, tie, sequence, fiber, (*v*) run, (*adj*) line.
- **стрункий** slim; *synonyms* (*adj*) slender, narrow, slight, thin, lean, remote, fine, skinny, flimsy, lithe, meager,

- light, (v) reduce, slenderize, cut; *antonyms* (*adj*) fat, heavy, hefty, plump, stocky, wide.
- cTpyc 1. shake; synonyms (ν) beat, agitate, jar, brandish, disturb, excite, flutter, totter, wag, (n) tremble, jolt, quiver, wave, trembling, (adj) quake, 2. jar; synonyms (n) jangle, blow, crock, container, jog, shake, amphora, bottle, crash, (ν) clash, creak, bump, collide, jounce, grate.
- студент student; synonyms (n) scholar, learner, disciple, pupil, apprentice, novice, savant, trainee, beginner, educatee; antonym (n) teacher.
- **студент-медик** medical; *synonyms* (*adj*) aesculapian, medicinal, medic, therapeutic, scientific, experimental, irrefutable, proven, quantifiable, (*n*) checkup, examination.
- **студія** studio; *synonyms* (*n*) atelier, cabinet, accommodation, building, bungalow, cottage, den, farmhouse, igloo, manor, mansion, terrace, villa, loft.
- CTYK knock; *synonyms* (v) hit, blow, bump, cuff, punch, strike, boot, clip, (n) rap, bang, tap, bash, crash, whack, clap; *antonym* (v) praise.
- **СТУКАТИ 1.** knock; *synonyms* (*v*) hit, blow, bump, cuff, punch, strike, boot, clip, (*n*) rap, bang, tap, bash, crash, whack, clap; *antonym* (*v*) praise, **2.** beat; *synonyms* (*v*) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (*n*) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; *antonym* (*v*) lose, **3.** tap; *synonyms* (*n*) pat, dab, stroke, touch, faucet, hydrant, plug, slap, spigot, (*v*) broach, bug, beat, eavesdrop, exploit, spout.
- CTYKİT clash; synonyms (n) bang, battle, brush, clang, crash, discord, encounter, (v) jar, fight, impact, brawl, clank, collide, conflict, dispute; antonyms (n) agreement, (v) agree.
- **стукнути** bang; *synonyms* (*n*) clap, beat, smack, knock, slap, smash, strike, blast, blow, bump, (*v*) hit, slam, bash, boom, clatter.
- **СТУЛКА** wing (КРИЛО); *synonyms* (*n*) annex, arm, fender, limb, pinion, flank, extension, pennon, feather, faction, sail, shelter, branch, (*v*) fly, soar.
- **ступінь 1**. degree; synonyms (n) class, extent, condition, level, order, place, rank, title, caliber, status, amount, caste, gradation, grade, height, 2. grade; synonyms (n) degree, brand, category, gradient, score, form, group, quality, slope, division, plane, (v) classify, evaluate, range, appraise, 3. step; synonyms (n) measure, stage, walk, gait, act, footprint, footstep, move, stride, advance, phase, procedure, (v) pace, proceeding, tread, 4. rate; synonyms (n) price, worth, value, percentage, (v) assess. estimate, appreciate, compute, count, calculate, merit, put, esteem, gauge, prize, 5. stage; synonyms (n) floor, period, point, arena, layer, chapter, leg, set, stadium, dais, era, (v) present, mount, play, arrange, 6. measure; synonyms (n) criterion, beat, benchmark, measurement, meter, quantity, allotment, action, bill, dose, magnitude, portion, rate, (v) fathom, (adj) mete, 7. pitch; synonyms (n) dip, slant, angle, delivery, (v) fling, cast, chuck, lurch, tilt, toss, heave, hurl, throw, careen, launch.
- **СТУПНЯ** foot (НОГА); *synonyms* (*n*) bottom, base, feet, foundation, basis, footing, measure, paw, pes, bed, butt, floor, (*v*) hoof, pay, hand; *antonym* (*n*) top.

- стурбований anxious; synonyms (adj) afraid, alarmed, nervous, tense, uneasy, agitated, apprehensive, concerned, distressed, fearful, frightened, keen, thoughtful, (v) jumpy, solicitous; antonyms (adj) calm, relaxed, carefree, confident, rational, unconcerned, undisturbed, untroubled.
- стусан 1. kick; synonyms (n) beef, bitch, gripe, thrill, bang, charge, excitement, flush, hit, (v) boot, grumble, recoil, spurn, protest, complain, 2. blow (дути); synonyms (n) beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, jolt, rap, (v) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, slap, (adj) gasp; antonyms (v) calm, save, 3. dig; synonyms (v) jab, delve, prod, burrow, comprehend, excavate, investigate, probe, apprehend, (n) poke, excavation, gibe, punch, stab, taunt; antonym (n) compliment.
- **стюард** steward; *synonyms* (n) custodian, keeper, waiter, warden, attendant, curator, agent, supervisor, questor, receiver.
- **CTHF** banner; *synonyms* (n) flag, ensign, title, bunting, colors, emblem, headline, pennant, pennon, streamer.
- суб'єктивний subjective; synonyms (adj) mental, biased, internal, objective, immanent, intellectual, prejudiced, psychological, rational; antonym (adj) impartial.
- **субсидія** 1. grant; *synonyms* (n) concession, donation, permit, (v) give, allow, award, bestow, admit, afford, concede, confer, gift, acknowledge, accord, boon; *antonyms* (v) deny, reject, 2. subsidy; *synonyms* (n) grant, aid, allowance, backing, support, endowment, (v) contribution, subscription.
- **субсидування** backing; *synonyms* (*n*) aid, patronage, support, approval, assistance, encouragement, endorsement, accompaniment, assist, championship, help, promotion, sanction, sponsorship, sustenance.
- субстанція substance; synonyms (n) essence, body, import, material, matter, meaning, significance, subject, amount, core, gist, means, quintessence, implication, spirit; antonym (n) triviality.
- cybepehitet sovereignty; synonyms (n) kingdom, reign, empire, autonomy, dominion, independence, power, realm, rule, majesty, monarchy, control, supremacy, sceptre, ascendancy.
- CYBIЙ roll; synonyms (n) list, revolution, catalogue, inventory, register, (v) coil, reel, curl, enfold, revolve, wheel, rock, turn, twist, wallow.
- суворий 1. severe; synonyms (adj) harsh, austere, rigid, biting, hard, inclement, rigorous, rough, arduous, bad, cutting, grim, heavy, intense, serious; antonyms (adj) gentle, mild, lenient, slight, easy, lax, 2. harsh; synonyms (adj) grating, sharp, bitter, coarse, crude, cruel, discordant, unkind, acrid, acute, brutal, extreme, gruff, severe, stern; antonyms (adj) smooth, harmonious, kind, pleasant, soft, melodious, sweet, 3. rigorous; synonyms (adj) precise, strict, accurate, exact, exacting, inflexible, stiff, stringent, nice, careful, close, demanding, difficult, grave, meticulous, 4, rigid: synonyms (adi) fixed, firm, set, formal, tense, tight, tough, determined, resolute, immovable, adamant, inexorable, obdurate, obstinate, relentless; antonyms (adj) flexible, elastic, 5. strict; synonyms (adj) correct, scrupulous, perfect, punctual, just, fastidious, religious,

- exigent, faithful, literal, narrow, particular, unbending, uncompromising, conscientious; *antonyms* (*adj*) free, imprecise, negligent, relaxed.
- cybopicts severity; synonyms (n) cruelty, austerity, harshness, rigor, asperity, inclemency, intensity, roughness, gravity, difficulty, grimness, hardness, hardship, inflexibility, rigorousness; antonyms (n) gentleness, leniency, clemency, flexibility, pleasantness.
- cyBopo severely; synonyms (adv) seriously, badly, gravely, hard, harshly, hardly, deeply, rigidly, sternly, roundly, heavily, extremely, greatly, plainly, strictly; antonyms (adv) leniently, gently, elaborately, lightheartedly, slightly.
- cyn 1. tribunal; synonyms (n) court, judicature, judicatory, trial, bar, 2. court; synonyms (n) forum, close, field, tribunal, passage, judge, courtroom, courtyard, hall, justice, (v) woo, attract, invite, romance, flatter; antonyms (v) avoid, shun, 3. law; synonyms (n) rule, canon, decree, act, edict, regulation, enactment, jurisprudence, order, police, principle, ruling, axiom, directive, liberty.
- **суддя 1**. judge; *synonyms* (n) arbiter, arbitrator, referee, (v) consider, estimate, evaluate, think, believe, condemn, assess, adjudicate, calculate, decide, guess, umpire, **2**. magistrate; *synonyms* (n) judge, justice, jurist, official, provost, archon, chancellor, officer, assignee, court, ephor, evaluator, judicature, justness, prefect, **3**. justice; *synonyms* (n) equity, fairness, impartiality, integrity, right, morality, correctness, reasonableness, uprightness, law, magistrate, probity, (*adj*) honesty, just, principle; *antonyms* (n) injustice, unfairness, **4**. referee; *synonyms* (n) mediator, adjudicator, ref, moderator, intermediary, referendary, (v) arbitrate, mediate, intercede.
- **судження 1**. verdict; *synonyms* (*n*) finding, decision, judgment, conclusion, determination, decree, resolution, ruling, sentence, choice, **2**. judgement; *synonyms* (*n*) discretion, assessment, discernment, opinion, belief, judging, mind, perspicacity, sagacity.
- **судина** vessel; *synonyms* (*n*) ship, boat, container, craft, duct, jar, vas, bowl, canal, pan, receptacle, basin, tube, watercraft, bottle.
- судити judge; synonyms (n) arbiter, arbitrator, referee, (v) consider, estimate, evaluate, think, believe, condemn, assess, adjudicate, calculate, decide, guess, umpire.
- **CYZHO 1.** Vessel; *synonyms* (n) ship, boat, container, craft, duct, jar, vas, bowl, canal, pan, receptacle, basin, tube, watercraft, bottle, **2.** craft; *synonyms* (n) ability, art, cunning, trade, artfulness, guile, fraud, shift, artifice, business, deceit, job, occupation, profession, skill, **3.** boat; *synonyms* (n) yacht, scull, dinghy, vessel, vehicle, shallop, schooner, sailboat, bateau, sauceboat, truck, aircraft, baiter, bucket, (v) cruise, **4.** ship; *synonyms* (n) ferry, bottom, (v) dispatch, send, forward, transport, consign, carry, embark, move, transfer, post, charge, mail, convey.
- **судноплавство** shipping; *synonyms* (*n*) freight, transport, conveyance, transportation, moving, carrying, craft, ecstasy, exaltation, rapture, raptus, transferral, vehicle.

- **судовий** 1. judicial; *synonyms* (*adj*) forensic, judiciary, legal, judicatory, dispassionate, lawful, juridic, juridical, discriminative, judicious, 2. legal; *synonyms* (*adj*) sound, valid, constitutional, judicial, permissible, rightful, true, correct, sanctioned, official, right, authentic, (*v*) allowable, legitimate, licit; *antonyms* (*adj*) illegal, unlawful, bogus.
- судочинство proceedings; synonyms (n) action, lawsuit, minutes, dealings, proceeding, prosecution, record, transactions, case, suit.
- cyκa bitch; synonyms (n) beef, moan, cunt, hen, kick, shrew, slut, trollop, (v) gripe, complain, backbite, protest, squawk, (adj) botch.
- **CYKHO** cloth; *synonyms* (*n*) fabric, material, cover, rag, stuff, textile, calling, net, (*v*) napkin.
- **сукня** gown; *synonyms* (*n*) dress, robe, uniform, tunic, gite, habit, paletot, scrubs, alb, blouse, chasuble, dalmatic, mozetta, scapulary, (*v*) clothe.
- CYKYIIHIM 1. aggregate; synonyms (adj) sum, aggregative, all, collective, (n) total, agglomerate, whole, complex, pile, combination, compound, (v) accumulate, cluster, amount, collect; antonyms (n) individual, part, 2. cumulative; synonyms (adj) accumulative, increasing, aggregate, amassed, growing, summative, additional, combined, additory, advancing, augmenting, chain, heaped, heightening, increscent.
- CYKYIIHICTB aggregate; synonyms (adj) sum, aggregative, all, collective, (n) total, agglomerate, whole, complex, pile, combination, compound, (v) accumulate, cluster, amount, collect; antonyms (n) individual, part.
- cym 1. sadness; synonyms (n) depression, grief, melancholy, desolation, misery, sorrow, despondency, gloom, regret, mourning, affliction, dejection, gloominess, unhappiness, (adj) distress; antonyms (n) happiness, amusement, cheerfulness, joy, laughter, 2. SOTTOW; synonyms (n) sadness, anguish, contrition, heartache, penitence, remorse, repentance, heartbreak, hardship, concern, compunction, (v) mourn, lament, grieve, pain; antonym (n) delight.
- cyma 1. sum; synonyms (n) total, quantity, entirety, mass, count, measure, join, (v) amount, aggregate, figure, number, add, resume, compute, (adj) all, 2. total; synonyms (adj) complete, absolute, entire, gross, downright, general, full, integral, outright, overall, sheer, thorough, (n) whole, sum, tally; antonyms (adj) partial, incomplete, qualified, 3. amount; synonyms (n) degree, extent, price, volume, body, bulk, cost, magnitude, quantum, size, value, quota, rate, height, (v) come, 4. quantum; synonyms (n) measurement, amplitude, 5. number; synonyms (n) score, act, issue, character, company, digit, multitude, numeral, copy, (v) calculate, enumerate, account, list, reckon, tell.
- **сумарний 1**. total; *synonyms* (*adj*) aggregate, complete, all, absolute, entire, gross, downright, general, (*n*) whole, amount, sum, tally, entirety, (*v*) count, number; *antonyms* (*adj*) partial, incomplete, qualified, **2**. summary; *synonyms* (*n*) abstract, compendium, abridgment, epitome, outline, digest, report, synopsis, precis, (*adj*) brief, compendious, concise, succinct, curt, short

- **суміжний** adjacent; *synonyms* (*adj*) abutting, adjoining, close, contiguous, conterminous, nearby, neighboring, next, touching, bordering, handy, immediate, nigh, (*adv*) near; *antonym* (*adj*) distant.
- сумісний 1. compatible; synonyms (adj) agreeable, congruent, accordant, congenial, sympathetic, becoming, congruous, consonant, harmonious, suitable, (n) consistent; antonym (adj) incompatible, 2. consistent; synonyms (adj) coherent, uniform, compatible, constant, logical, conformable, regular, unchanging, concurrent, unvarying, equable, firm, fixed, invariable, legitimate; antonyms (adj) inconsistent, erratic, contradictory, illogical, unpredictable, unreliable.
- cymiii 1. compound; synonyms (n) blend, complex, mix, amalgam, combination, concoction, mixture, brew, composition, (v) alloy, amalgamate, combine, compromise, (adj) composite, mixed; antonym (adj) simple, 2. mixture; synonyms (n) assortment, hodgepodge, jumble, medley, miscellany, admixture, commixture, compound, compost, melange, fusion, intermixture, mishmash, mixing, preparation, 3. composite; synonyms (adj) aggregate, (n) complicated, synthesis, 4. mix; synonyms (v) intermingle, mingle, confound, intermix, join, meld, merge, admix, immingle, associate, coalesce, confuse, consort, fuse, immix; antonym (v) separate.
- cymka 1. bag; synonyms (n) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (v) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net, 2. wallet; synonyms (n) bag, billfold, notecase, pocketbook, satchel, 3. case; synonyms (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, action, cause, (adj) patient.
- **сумління** conscience; *synonyms* (n) shame, scruple, principles, bosom, compunction, duty, ethics, inwit, obligation, principle, qualm, regret, (adj) abandoned, (v) absolve, acquit.
- сумний sad; synonyms (adj) dreary, dismal, distressing, gloomy, miserable, mournful, pitiable, pitiful, bad, bleak, dejected, deplorable, depressed, depressing, disconsolate; antonyms (adj) happy, cheerful, joyful, brave, cheery, composed.
- **cymhib** doubt; *synonyms* (n) disbelief, misgiving, question, dispute, apprehension, incertitude, skepticism, uncertainty, diffidence, (v) distrust, query, suspicion, mistrust, suspect, demur; *antonyms* (n) certainty, confidence, conclusiveness, (v) trust.
- **cymhibathc9** doubt; *synonyms* (n) disbelief, misgiving, question, dispute, apprehension, incertitude, skepticism, uncertainty, diffidence, (v) distrust, query, suspicion, mistrust, suspect, demur; *antonyms* (n) certainty, confidence, conclusiveness, (v) trust.
- **сумнівний** 1. dubious; *synonyms* (*adj*) doubtful, debatable, questionable, uncertain, ambiguous, vague, incredulous, precarious, shady, skeptical, suspicious, undecided, unlikely, unreliable, unsure; *antonyms* (*adj*) indisputable, trustworthy, certain, definite, **2**. doubtful; *synonyms* (*adj*) dubious, disputable, distrustful, queer, tentative, diffident, hesitant, indistinct, unsettled, suspensive, apocryphal, apprehensive, dubitable, equivocal, gloomy; *antonyms* (*adj*) trusting, convinced,

- reliable, confident, persuaded, provable, sure, 3. uncertain; synonyms (adj) changeable, chancy, unsafe, variable, hazardous, risky, indeterminate, fitful, hazy, inconstant, insecure, irresolute, problematic, shaky, (v) indefinite; antonyms (adj) clear, decisive, decided, inevitable, safe, strong-minded, unquestionable.
- cymho sadly; synonyms (adv) dolefully, lamentably, miserably, pitifully, unhappily, dejectedly, despondently, forlornly, piteously, regrettably, sorrowfully, unfortunately, woefully, deplorably, pathetically; antonyms (adv) happily, cheerfully, contentedly.
- cyn soup; synonyms (n) broth, predicament, amalgam, combination, compound, explosive, fog, fuel, haze, (v) pottage, potage, drink, liquor, beverage, (adj) emulsion.
- **суперечити** counter; *synonyms* (n) buffet, bench, reverse, (v) reply, contradict, resist, answer, react, respond, retort, thwart, (adj) converse, antagonistic, contrary, opposite.
- суперечка 1. controversy; synonyms (n) contention, argumentation, argument, contest, altercation, conflict, debate, difference, dispute, squabble, row, competition, arguing, contestation, disagreement, 2. dispute; synonyms (n) brawl, quarrel, wrangle, question, combat, discussion, disputation, feud, (v) argue, controversy, discuss, fight, contradict, battle, challenge; antonyms (n) agreement, (v) agree, 3. contest; synonyms (n) bout, race, struggle, game, match, action, encounter, engagement, fray, strife, (v) compete, contend, war, clash, controvert, 4. debate; synonyms (n) consideration, palaver, conversation, conference, converse, deliberation, (v) canvass, altercate, consider, deliberate, moot, reason, agitate, cogitate, discourse.
- **суперечливий** contradictory; *synonyms* (*adj*) conflicting, incompatible, inconsistent, contrary, discordant, antagonistic, opposite, ironic, discrepant, incoherent, incongruous, opposed, opposing, repugnant, (*n*) disagreeing; *antonyms* (*adj*) consistent, similar, compatible.
- **суперечність** 1. contradiction; *synonyms* (n) antithesis, denial, clash, contrast, disagreement, discrepancy, inconsistency, opposite, refutation, reverse; *antonym* (n) agreement, 2. collision; *synonyms* (n) clashing, conflict, crash, hit, smash, accident, rencounter, jar, hitting, striking, blow, concussion, contact, discord, encounter.
- **супермаркет** supermarket; *synonyms* (n) store, grocery, market, emporium, shop, bakery, bakeshop, confectionery, dairy, delicatessen, greengrocer.
- **суперник 1**. rival; *synonyms* (*adj*) competitive, (*n*) competitor, emulate, enemy, foe, adversary, antagonist, challenger, contender, contestant, (*v*) equal, contest, match, compete, contend; *antonyms* (*adj*) allied, (*n*) ally, friend, partner, **2**. competitor; *synonyms* (*n*) rival, candidate, competition, opponent, aspirant, entrant, corrival, player, athlete, claimant, fighter, **3**. opponent; *synonyms* (*n*) contrary, foeman, opposition, opposer, opposite, withstander, (*adj*) opposing; *antonyms* (*n*) supporter, follower.
- **супроводжувати 1**. accompany; *synonyms* (v) attend, follow, associate, companion, company, guide, lead, walk, consort, bring, concur, conduct, convoy, join, (n)

- escort, **2**. convoy; *synonyms* (*n*) guard, column, fleet, procession, safeguard, train, (*v*) accompany, **3**. attend; *synonyms* (*v*) assist, serve, advert, aid, hear, help, listen, look, minister, see, keep, remain, (*n*) tend, doctor, nurse.
- **супроводити 1**. accompany; *synonyms* (*v*) attend, follow, associate, companion, company, guide, lead, walk, consort, bring, concur, conduct, convoy, join, (*n*) escort, **2**. convoy; *synonyms* (*n*) guard, column, fleet, procession, safeguard, train, (*v*) accompany.
- **супротивник** 1. enemy; *synonyms* (n) adversary, antagonist, foe, opponent, opposition, competitor, assailant, foeman, hostile, challenger, contender, (adj) rival; *antonyms* (n) ally, friend, supporter, **2**. opponent; *synonyms* (n) enemy, contrary, contestant, match, opposer, opposite, fighter, player, withstander, (adj) opposing; *antonym* (n) follower.
- **супутник** satellite; *synonyms* (n) follower, moon, planet, attendant, orbiter, disciple, secondary, cohort, hanger-on, colony, dependency, inferior, (adj) ancillary, collateral, concomitant.
- **cyci**A neighbour; *synonyms* (n) neighbor, (adj) neighboring, neighbouring.
- **cyciдa** neighbour; *synonyms* (n) neighbor, (adj) neighboring, neighbouring.
- **cyciди** neighbourhood; *synonyms* (*n*) locality, neighborhood, vicinity.
- **cyciдка** neighbour; *synonyms* (n) neighbor, (adj) neighboring, neighbouring.
- **сусідній** adjacent; *synonyms* (*adj*) abutting, adjoining, close, contiguous, conterminous, nearby, neighboring, next, touching, bordering, handy, immediate, nigh, (*adv*) near; *antonym* (*adj*) distant.
- cyciactbo 1. neighbourhood; synonyms (n) locality, neighborhood, vicinity, 2. vicinity; synonyms (n) region, district, proximity, place, environs, neighbourhood, vicinage, area, outskirts, section, 3. presence; synonyms (n) appearance, front, attendance, bearing, manner, mien, carriage, air, comportment, figure, demeanor, company, aspect, look, (adj) breeding; antonyms (n) absence, nonattendance.
- **суспільний 1**. social; *synonyms* (*adj*) gregarious, national, companionable, friendly, public, common, neighborly, affable, communicative, convivial, societal, (*n*) sociable, mixer, party, society, **2**. public; *synonyms* (*adj*) overt, civic, general, communal, mutual, popular, ordinary, civil, (*n*) folk, community, people, populace, audience, (*v*) open, plebeian; *antonyms* (*adj*) private, confidential, personal.
- **суспільство 1**. society; *synonyms* (*n*) club, institution, public, association, community, companionship, company, corporation, fellowship, fraternity, circle, people, commonwealth, group, guild, **2**. community; *synonyms* (*n*) agreement, commune, nation, brotherhood, likeness, district, order, population, society, solidarity, (*adj*) communal, neighborhood, common, shared, social; *antonym* (*adj*) private.
- сутичка 1. clash; synonyms (n) bang, battle, brush, clang, crash, discord, encounter, (v) jar, fight, impact, brawl, clank, collide, conflict, dispute; antonyms (n) agreement, (v) agree, 2. encounter; synonyms (n) collision, combat, contest, action, confrontation, engagement, (v) clash,

- confront, experience, face, find, rencounter, detect, bump, chance; antonym (v) retreat, 3. Conflict; synonyms (n) contention, antagonism, difference disagreement, fighting, scuffle, strife, struggle, war, clashing, argument, dissension, dissent, feud, (v) disagree; antonyms (n) accord, harmony, peace, 4. affair; synonyms (n) matter, business, concern, event, job, occasion, occurrence, amour, duty, happening, incident, issue, party, subject, theme, 5. collision; synonyms (n) hit, smash, accident, hitting, striking, blow, concussion, contact, percussion, shock, (v) rencontre.
- **сутінки** dusk; *synonyms* (n) dark, nightfall, twilight, darkness, gloaming, gloom, night, shade, sunset, shadow, evenfall, evening, eventide, sundown, (adj) dusky; *antonyms* (n) dawn, sunrise, daybreak, light.
- **CYTHICTЬ** essence; *synonyms* (n) core, entity, aroma, being, crux, gist, perfume, hypostasis, body, burden, extract, fragrance, heart, kernel, nub.
- **суттєвий 1.** essential; *synonyms* (*adj*) necessary, crucial, important, inherent, requisite, constituent, basic, elementary, fundamental, natural, central, constitutional, (*n*) necessity, base, (*v*) imperative; *antonyms* (*adj*) minor, secondary, (*n*) inessential, optional, option, unimportant, peripheral, luxury, **2.** significant; *synonyms* (*adj*) material, momentous, grave, meaningful, serious, critical, emphatic, expressive, indicative, major, pregnant, relevant, substantial, (*v*) considerable, influential; *antonyms* (*adj*) insignificant, small, trivial.
- **суть 1**. essence; *synonyms* (n) core, entity, aroma, being, crux, gist, perfume, hypostasis, body, burden, extract, fragrance, heart, kernel, nub, 2. entity; synonyms (n) existence, object, thing, whole, article, creature, essence, individual, item, reality, part, piece, 3. content; synonyms (n) capacity, contentment, matter, meaning, subject, substance, contentedness, (adj) contented, happy, fulfilled, (v) appease, please, satisfy, suffice, delight; antonyms (adj) tormented, unhappy, discontented, dissatisfied, rebellious, (v) discontent, upset, 4. substance; synonyms (n) import, material, significance, amount, means, quintessence, implication, spirit, content, element, marrow, meat, strength, stuff, importance; antonym (n) triviality, 5. point; synonyms (n) place, grade, peak, nib, edge, aim, degree, dot, mark, spot, phase, apex, (v) head, direct, level.
- сухий 1. dry; synonyms (adj) thirsty, arid, barren, boring, dehydrated, dull, bald, hoarse, jejune, plain, (v) dehydrate, desiccate, drain, uninteresting, sardonic; antonyms (adj) wet, damp, moist, saturated, soaked, boggy, drenched, rainy, sodden, interesting, fresh, humid, juicy, succulent, (v) drench, 2. dusty; synonyms (adj) powdery, dirty, sandy, sooty, dry, mealy, branny, pulverulent, unclean.
- CYXICTb dry; synonyms (adj) thirsty, arid, barren, boring, dehydrated, dull, bald, hoarse, jejune, plain, (v) dehydrate, desiccate, drain, uninteresting, sardonic; antonyms (adj) wet, damp, moist, saturated, soaked, boggy, drenched, rainy, sodden, interesting, fresh, humid, juicy, succulent, (v) drench.
- **суцільний 1**. integrate; *synonyms* (*v*) incorporate, blend, combine, consolidate, fuse, amalgamate, embody, merge, unify, unite, join, mix, coalesce, commingle, desegregate; *antonyms* (*v*) separate, exclude, segregate,

- 2. solid; *synonyms* (*adj*) firm, dense, compact, consistent, hard, real, strong, good, fixed, massive, secure, substantial, fast, hearty, (*v*) close; *antonyms* (*adj*) soft, unreliable, loose, gaseous, permeable, runny, transparent, watery, (*n*) liquid.
- сучасний 1. modern; synonyms (adj) fresh, new, fashionable, late, advanced, current, latest, recent, contemporary, novel, present, stylish, innovative, chic, latter; antonyms (adj) old-fashioned, ancient, antiquated, old, prehistoric, traditional, conservative, neurotic, oldtime, primordial, 2. contemporary; synonyms (adj) contemporaneous, modern, up-to-date, topical, existing, simultaneous, coetaneous, cotemporary, (n) coeval, equal; antonym (adj) past, 3. actual; synonyms (adi) real, absolute, true, factual, genuine, authentic, existent, indisputable, literal, positive, precise, tangible, veritable, very, (n) accurate; antonyms (adj) false, hypothetical, supposed, 4. present; synonyms (adj) grant, confer, (n) gift, donation, (v) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; antonyms (adi) missing, (n) future, history, (v) withdraw. (adv) absent, 5. current; synonyms (adj) common, instant, actual, popular, prevalent, rife, accepted, (n) flow, stream, run, afloat, movement, trend, (prep) course, tide; antonyms (adj) obsolete, previous, 6. new; synonyms (adj) green, original, additional, inexperienced, raw, strange, unaccustomed, unprecedented, young, different, newfangled, unfamiliar, (adv) lately, freshly, recently; antonyms (adj) familiar, outgoing, second-hand, used, less, stale.
- CYIIA 1. dry; synonyms (adj) thirsty, arid, barren, boring, dehydrated, dull, bald, hoarse, jejune, plain, (v) dehydrate, desiccate, drain, uninteresting, sardonic; antonyms (adj) wet, damp, moist, saturated, soaked, boggy, drenched, rainy, sodden, interesting, fresh, humid, juicy, succulent, (v) drench, 2. earth (3eMJR); synonyms (n) dirt, world, dust, ground, land, clay, lair, creation, ball, country, den, globe, hole, nature, orb, 3. land; synonyms (n) soil, field, kingdom, domain, estate, nation, realm, state, empire, (v) disembark, debark, alight, get, drop, arrive; antonym (adj) aquatic.
- сушити 1. dry; synonyms (adj) thirsty, arid, barren, boring, dehydrated, dull, bald, hoarse, jejune, plain, (v) dehydrate, desiccate, drain, uninteresting, sardonic; antonyms (adj) wet, damp, moist, saturated, soaked, boggy, drenched, rainy, sodden, interesting, fresh, humid, juicy, succulent, (v) drench, 2. stove; synonyms (n) range, furnace, heater, ambit, chain, compass, grasp, orbit, reach, scope, warmer.
- CYIMITUCЯ dry; synonyms (adj) thirsty, arid, barren, boring, dehydrated, dull, bald, hoarse, jejune, plain, (v) dehydrate, desiccate, drain, uninteresting, sardonic; antonyms (adj) wet, damp, moist, saturated, soaked, boggy, drenched, rainy, sodden, interesting, fresh, humid, juicy, succulent, (v) drench.
- **сущий** mere; *synonyms* (*adj*) bare, entire, pure, simple, clear, naked, (*n*) lake, loch, downright, tarn, absolute, boundary, pond, stark, (*v*) sheer.
- **сфера 1**. area (площа); *synonyms* (*n*) place, region, size, width, expanse, field, neighborhood, section, sphere, breadth, compass, district, domain, extent, land, **2**.

- sphere; synonyms (n) range, area, province, realm, ball, circle, department, globe, round, ring, arena, orb, rank, capacity, bowl, 3. realm; synonyms (n) kingdom, country, nation, empire, ground, commonwealth, demesne, monarchy, orbit, state, territory, dominion, principality, reign, soil, 4. circle (коло); synonyms (n) association, band, beat, circuit, company, gang, scope, set, league, clique, club, (v) turn, whirl, encircle, circulate, 5. range; synonyms (n) array, reach, distance, (v) line, arrange, order, roam, group, ramble, wander, align, gad, classify, dispose, go, 6. region; synonyms (n) part, division, locality, quarter, belt, direction, position, portion, terrain, tract, vicinity, zone, office, piece, 7. territory (територія); synonyms (n) jurisdiction, possession, environment, habitat. community, space, colony, county, estate, home, rule, sovereignty.
- **схвалений** approved; *synonyms* (*adj*) accepted, certified, sanctioned, allowed, authorized, accredited, agreed, conventional, regular, official, orthodox; *antonyms* (*adj*) informal, unofficial.
- схваления 1. approval; synonyms (n) acceptance, applause, approbation, acclaim, agreement, recognition, admiration, acclamation, acknowledgment, acquiescence, appreciation, commendation, confirmation, consent, permission; antonyms (n) disapproval, rejection, condemnation, scorn, criticism,
   2. acceptance; synonyms (n) acceptation, adoption, accession, approval, assumption, credence, ratification, receipt, welcome, belief, admission, assent, espousal, popularity, reception; antonyms (n) refutation, dispatch.
- **СХВАЛИТИ** approve (СХВАЛЮВАТИ); *synonyms* (*v*) sanction, adopt, accept, acknowledge, allow, admit, agree, endorse, let, ratify, support, applaud, acquiesce, authorize, confirm; *antonyms* (*v*) reject, censure, condemn, disapprove, forbid, veto.
- **CXBAJIOBATH** approve; *synonyms* (v) sanction, adopt, accept, acknowledge, allow, admit, agree, endorse, let, ratify, support, applaud, acquiesce, authorize, confirm; *antonyms* (v) reject, censure, condemn, disapprove, forbid, veto.
- **СХВИЛЬОВАНИЙ** excited; *synonyms* (*adj*) agitated, ablaze, emotional, enthusiastic, frantic, ardent, aroused, delirious, fervent, heated, impassioned, passionate, warm, elated, (*v*) animated; *antonyms* (*adj*) calm, cool, unexcited.
- exema 1. device; synonyms (n) contrivance, apparatus, appliance, artifice, emblem, contraption, figure, gimmick, invention, plan, trick, way, design, dodge, expedient, 2. diagram; synonyms (n) chart, sketch, graph, drawing, illustration, outline, picture, plat, (v) plot, 3. chart; synonyms (n) table, graphic, diagram, schematic, schedule, scheme, (v) map, draw, list, 4. plan; synonyms (n) aim, intent, pattern, invent, form, arrangement, blueprint, idea, (v) devise, intend, arrange, conceive, contrive, draft, engineer, 5. scheme; synonyms (n) device, method, project, conspiracy, frame, maneuver, purpose, schema, system, model, manoeuvre, (v) intrigue, conspire, connive, hatch.
- **схиблений 1.** crazy; *synonyms* (*adj*) deranged, mad, madcap, wild, absurd, brainsick, cracked, crazed,

- demented, eccentric, foolish, ludicrous, preposterous, silly, wacky; *antonyms* (*adj*) sane, sensible, **2**. mad; *synonyms* (*adj*) frantic, frenzied, insane, delirious, angry, crazy, distracted, frenetic, lunatic, irate, maniac, distraught, cross, (*n*) furious, anger; *antonym* (*adj*) calm.
- **СХИЛ 1.** descent; *synonyms* (*n*) ancestry, decline, birth, fall, blood, declension, declination, declivity, derivation, drop, extraction, family, lineage, origin, pedigree; *antonyms* (*n*) ascent, improvement, **2.** pitch; *synonyms* (*n*) degree, dip, slant, slope, (*v*) fling, cast, chuck, lurch, tilt, toss, heave, hurl, throw, careen, launch, **3.** slope; *synonyms* (*n*) incline, descent, grade, gradient, hill, inclination, brae, hillside, ramp, (*v*) pitch, cant, lean, bank, tip, (*adj*) obliquity.
- **схильний 1**. inclined; *synonyms* (adi) prone, apt, oblique, willing, bowed, liable, likely, minded, predisposed, ready, bent, fain, susceptible, (v) given, (prep) disposed; antonyms (adj) level, reluctant, unwilling, 2. apt; synonyms (adj) appropriate, adroit, apropos, apposite, intelligent, good, able, adequate, convenient, dexterous, efficient, fit, smart, clever, deft; antonym (adj) inappropriate, 3. prone; synonyms (adj) inclined, flat, subject, procumbent, prostrate, supine, exposed; antonym (adj) upright, 4. willing; synonyms (adj) agreeable, spontaneous, voluntary, amenable, prepared, enthusiastic, unforced, consenting, obliging, content, desirous, game, glad, conformable, docile, 5. subject; synonyms (n) matter, citizen, affair, dependent, inferior, issue, motif, question, point, area, discipline, field, national, study, (v) subdue; antonym (adj) liberated, 6. liable; synonyms (adj) accountable, answerable, responsible, culpable, vulnerable, obnoxious, blameworthy, guilty; antonym (adj) exempt.
- **схильність 1**. addiction; *synonyms* (n) dependence, dependency, devotion, habit, enslavement, trick, custom, tendency, fascination, mania, obsession, thing, bag, complex, consecration, 2. bent; synonyms (adj) arched, curved, bended, crooked, deformed, intent, (n) aptitude, inclination, propensity, fancy, ability, bias, flair, gift, leaning; *antonym* (*adj*) straight, **3**. vein; *synonyms* (*n*) streak, vena, nervure, strain, mine, temper, stripe, tone, cast, style, fund, funicle, (adj) humor, mood, strip, 4. appetite; synonyms (n) desire, appetence, appetency, relish, craving, gusto, liking, passion, stomach, taste, thirst, want, appetition, fondness, (v) demand; antonym (n) dislike, 5. leaning; synonyms (n) bent, incline, lean, mind, penchant, predilection, proclivity, tilt, inclining, (adj) disposition, canted, inclined, oblique, partiality, tilted; antonym (adj) level, 6. strain; synonyms (n) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (v) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; antonym (v) relax.
- **СХИЛЯТИ 1**. bias; *synonyms* (*n*) penchant, drift, influence, turn, twist, favor, slope, angle, bigotry, (*v*) prejudice, bent, slant, dispose, (*adj*) partiality, diagonal; *antonyms* (*n*) impartiality, neutrality, fairness, **2**. dispose; *synonyms* (*v*) arrange, incline, adjust, order, predispose, discard, lead, place, position, range, regulate, tend, classify, (*n*) array, bias; *antonym* (*v*) indispose.

- **CXUJISTUCS** bow; *synonyms* (n) arc, curve, obeisance, turn, curvature, (v) bend, arch, stoop, duck, buckle, crouch, incline, kowtow, crook, defer.
- cxi<sub>Λ</sub> 1. east; synonyms (n) orient, e, einsteinium, tocopherol, (v) orientate, 2. rise; synonyms (n) elevation, lift, ascent, progress, raise, swell, raising, advancement, (v) climb, mount, ascend, increase, heave, arise, jump; antonyms (n) reduction, (v) fall, decrease, drop, sink, descend, plummet, retire.
- **східний 1.** eastern; *synonyms* (*adj*) easterly, orient, oriental, bright, ortive, lustrous, pellucid, perfect, pure, superior, **2.** oriental; *synonyms* (*adj*) eastern, (*n*) orientalist, **3.** east; *synonyms* (*n*) e, einsteinium, tocopherol, (*v*) orientate.
- **східці** stairs; *synonyms* (*n*) stair, staircase, stairway, steps. **схов** custody; *synonyms* (*n*) detention, charge, confinement, captivity, care, security, hold, protection, conservation, control, imprisonment, incarceration, keeping, maintenance, (*v*) keep; *antonyms* (*n*) release, freedom.
- **схований** hidden; *synonyms* (*adj*) clandestine, concealed, obscure, dark, covert, latent, secret, arcane, buried, confidential, covered, deep, disguised, invisible, masked; *antonyms* (*adj*) obvious, exposed, open, active, noticeable, overt, revealing.
- **CXOBATU** hide; *synonyms* (*v*) conceal, disguise, obscure, bury, cloak, mask, shelter, (*n*) cover, fur, coat, fell, skin, veil, cloud, (*adj*) darken; *antonyms* (*v*) reveal, show, expose, express.
- **сховище** depot; *synonyms* (*n*) store, depository, arsenal, station, storehouse, warehouse, dump, entrepot, stockroom, stop, storage, storeroom, terminal, terminus.
- **сходження 1**. ascent; *synonyms* (n) acclivity, ascension, rise, climb, ascending, elevation, hill, incline, advance, grade, jump, slant, gradient, hike, inclination; *antonyms* (n) descent, fall, **2**. mount; *synonyms* (v) ascend, board, arise, bestride, grow, increase, ride, scale, erect, fix, heighten, install, launch, (n) frame, mountain; *antonyms* (v) descend, drop, (n) valley.
- **сходи 1.** stairs; *synonyms* (n) stair, staircase, stairway, steps, **2.** staircase; *synonyms* (n) stairs, chairlift, entrance.
- **СХОДИТИ** rise; *synonyms* (n) elevation, lift, ascent, progress, raise, swell, raising, advancement, (v) climb, mount, ascend, increase, heave, arise, jump; *antonyms* (n) reduction, (v) fall, decrease, drop, sink, descend, plummet, retire.
- **СХОДКА** congregation, *synonyms* (n) concourse, assemblage, assembly, collection, gathering, meeting, congregating, convocation, crowd, flock, fold, company, audience, confluence, throng.
- **схожий** 1. similar; *synonyms* (*adj*) corresponding, alike, like, same, comparable, equivalent, related, akin, analogous, cognate, correspondent, equal, conformable, resembling, (v) identical; *antonyms* (*adj*) dissimilar, different, unlike, incompatible, opposing, opposite, 2. like; *synonyms* (v) enjoy, care, desire, fancy, wish, savor, appreciate, (*adj*) parallel, similar, such, (*adv*) as, (n) love, relish, counterpart, affect; *antonym* (v) dislike, 3.

- alike; *synonyms* (*adv*) equally, likewise, (*adj*) duplicate, even, likely; *antonym* (*adv*) differently.
- **CXO**XICTL resemblance; *synonyms* (*n*) affinity, comparison, correspondence, likeness, parallel, similarity, conformity, appearance, analogy, semblance, imitation, parallelism, representation, sameness, similitude; *antonyms* (*n*) difference, dissimilarity.
- **CXOTIUTH 1.** grasp; *synonyms* (*n*) grip, catch, clasp, clutch, clinch, appreciation, (*v*) comprehend, embrace, hold, apprehend, grapple, conceive, capture, cling, grab; *antonym* (*v*) release, **2.** catch; *synonyms* (*v*) arrest, hook, get, acquire, ensnare, intercept, snatch, take, trap, (*n*) haul, hitch, trick, bolt, pawl, snap, **3.** grip; *synonyms* (*n*) handle, bag, clench, clutches, clamp, compass, suitcase, (*v*) grasp, fascinate, gripe, captivate, nip, pinch, seize, squeeze; *antonym* (*v*) bore.
- CXOIIJIOBATII grasp; synonyms (n) grip, catch, clasp, clutch, clinch, appreciation, (v) comprehend, embrace, hold, apprehend, grapple, conceive, capture, cling, grab; antonym (v) release.
- **CXOPOHHICTS** preservation; *synonyms* (*n*) conservation, maintenance, keeping, protection, custody, upkeep, care, salvation, saving, security, creation; *antonyms* (*n*) destruction, extinction, release.
- **схрещування** crossing; *synonyms* (n) cross, ford, transit, crossbreeding, hybridization, intersection, passage, voyage, crossroad, crosswalk, crossway, cruise, flight, interbreeding, junction.
- **CXPEMYBATU** Cross; *synonyms* (n) crisscross, affliction, (v) intersect, baffle, cover, thwart, (adj) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; *antonyms* (v) uncross, (adj) calm, good-tempered.
- сцена 1. stage; synonyms (n) grade, phase, floor, degree, level, period, point, arena, layer, chapter, leg, gradation, (v) present, order, mount, 2. scene; synonyms (n) aspect, view, background, display, environment, outlook, panorama, picture, spectacle, lookout, perspective, act, appearance, look, (v) prospect, 3. board; synonyms (n) council, bench, meal, panel, table, office, sign, commission, committee, court, embark, plank, (v) keep, lodge, accommodate; antonym (v) disembark.
- сценарій 1. continuity; synonyms (n) continuation, coherence, continuance, duration, persistence, concatenation, sequence, perseverance, run, series, chain, constancy, continency, course, flow; antonym (n) discontinuity, 2. script; synonyms (n) calligraphy, hand, book, handwriting, copy, document, inscription, lettering, letters, text, treatment, writing, playscript, record, 3. scenario; synonyms (n) plot, continuity, chronicle, design, forecast, plan, prediction, projection, ruse, scheme, diagnosis, narrative, prospects.
- **сьогодні** today; *synonyms* (*adv*) now, currently, nowadays, presently, immediately, directly, forthwith, instantly, straightaway, (*n*) present, (*adj*) modern, recent, up-to-date.
- **сюди** here; *synonyms* (*adv*) hither, in, about, arrived, available, indoors, inwards, (*n*) hair, (*adj*) present, there, near, nearby, (*pron*) her, their; *antonym* (*adv*) out.

- **CHOKET** plot; *synonyms* (n) conspiracy, plan, lot, scheme, chart, design, graph, patch, (v) intrigue, cabal, plat, conspire, contrive, concoct, engineer.
- **CIOPIIPU3** surprise; *synonyms* (n) fright, amazement, astonishment, surprisal, wonder, admiration, (v) astound, alarm, amaze, astonish, shock, startle, jolt, stun, catch.
- **CЯΓΑΤИ** reach; *synonyms* (*v*) range, overtake, obtain, achieve, attain, extend, get, make, pass, accomplish, (*n*) fetch, compass, stretch, extent, gain.
- **CЯΓΗУΤИ** reach; *synonyms* (ν) range, overtake, obtain, achieve, attain, extend, get, make, pass, accomplish, (n) fetch, compass, stretch, extent, gain.
- **сяючий** shining; *synonyms* (*adj*) bright, brilliant, lustrous, glossy, luminous, radiant, resplendent, glorious, clear, effulgent, glistening, glittering, glowing, sheeny, (*n*) lucid; *antonym* (*adj*) dull.
- **СЯЯННЯ** radiation; *synonyms* (*n*) emanation, emission, irradiation, actinotherapy, beam, dissipation, flash, light, divergence, radiotherapy, spread, (*v*) radioactivity, plutonium, radium, (*adj*) radiance.
- **CHATH** blaze; *synonyms* (*n*) glare, flame, burning, fire, light, hell, scintillation, combustion, (*v*) flash, beam, flicker, mark, shimmer, (*adj*) burn, glow.

## T

- **Ta 1.** and; *synonyms* (*conj*) with, (*adv*) also, additionally, (*prep*) plus, including, (*adj*) more, **2.** but; *synonyms* (*conj*) while, (*adv*) alone, only, though, barely, however, merely, simply, yet, exclusively, if, just, (*prep*) besides, except, excluding.
- табель table (стіл); synonyms (n) board, chart, schedule, stand, list, plateau, console, platen, panel, (v) defer, postpone, shelve, slate, tablet, (adj) plate.
- **Ta6ip** camp; *synonyms* (n) bivouac, encampment, faction, base, barracks, cantonment, side, sect, (ν) encamp, pitch, tent, (adi) campy.
- **TABJIETKA** cake; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, block, pastry, lump, pie, (*v*) harden, set, (*adj*) clot, fix.
- таблиця 1. table (стіл); synonyms (n) board, chart, schedule, stand, list, plateau, console, platen, panel, (v) defer, postpone, shelve, slate, tablet, (adj) plate, 2. chart; synonyms (n) plan, plot, table, graphic, diagram, drawing, schematic, figure, illustration, (v) map, graph, sketch, design, draw, outline.
- **Ταбун** flock; *synonyms* (n) bunch, crowd, cluster, band, bevy, congregation, covey, gang, herd, horde, pack, troop, (ν) assemble, mass, (adj) swarm.
- **TaбypeT** stool; *synonyms* (*n*) chair, seat, bench, dejection, faeces, feces, ordure, form, movement, throne, toilet, can, commode, crapper, lavatory.
- **TaBpo** brand; *synonyms* (*n*) badge, blade, class, kind, stain, type, emblem, falchion, make, nature, slur, (*v*) mark, denounce, (*adj*) stigma, blot.
- **таврувати** 1. brand; *synonyms* (n) badge, blade, class, kind, stain, type, emblem, falchion, make, nature, slur, (v) mark, denounce, (adj) stigma, blot, 2. burn; *synonyms* (v) bite, glow, blaze, incinerate, scorch, sting,

- bake, beam, boil, cremate, flare, ignite, sunburn, (n) fire, (adj) flush; antonym (v) dawdle.
- Таємний 1. secret; synonyms (adj) concealed, covert, hidden, mysterious, confidential, furtive, obscure, occult, secrecy, clandestine, (n) privacy, arcanum, (v) private, secluded, close; antonyms (adj) open, (n) known, public,

   2. private; synonyms (adj) personal, individual, secret, inner, esoteric, exclusive, intimate, particular, domestic, interior, lonely, own, privy, retired, special; antonyms (adj) communal, community, nationalized, official, stateowned, civic, shared, state, 3. invisible; synonyms (adj) imperceptible, inconspicuous, intangible, sightless, impalpable, unseeable, unseen, evanescent; antonyms (adj) obvious, visible, conspicuous.
- таємниця 1. mystery; synonyms (n) conundrum, arcanum, enigma, secret, mysteriousness, puzzle, secrecy, craft, perplexity, poser, problem, riddle, whodunit, cabala, question; antonyms (n) clearness, explanation, 2. secret; synonyms (adj) concealed, covert, hidden, mysterious, confidential, furtive, obscure, occult, clandestine, dark, esoteric, (n) privacy, (v) private, secluded, close; antonyms (adj) open, (n) known, public, 3. secrecy; synonyms (n) concealment, silence, confidentiality, darkness, mystery, retirement, seclusion, secretiveness, mum, privateness, furtiveness, closeness, stealth, covertness, muteness; antonym (n) openness
- **Таємничнй** mysterious; *synonyms* (*adj*) hidden, inscrutable, deep, eerie, incomprehensible, inexplicable, abstruse, arcane, cryptic, dark, obscure, secret, clandestine, concealed, covert; *antonyms* (*adj*) known, straightforward, apparent, normal.
- **Ταємнο** underground; *synonyms* (*adj*) clandestine, secret, covert, hidden, undercover, surreptitious, furtive, stealthy, belowground, guerilla, (*n*) metro, subway, tube, (*ν*) buried, underhand.
- Ta3 basin; synonyms (n) bowl, pot, depression, dock, hollow, tank, washbasin, washbowl, basinful, cavity, cup, lavatory, pool, sink, washstand.
- **TAÏTH** nurse; *synonyms* (n) nurture, doctor, amah, (v) nourish, attend, cherish, entertain, foster, harbor, lactate, cradle, cultivate, keep, raise, breastfeed.
- тайна privacy; synonyms (n) seclusion, secrecy, confidentiality, darkness, privateness, retreat, concealment, loneliness, shelter, retirement, solitude.
- **Тайник** hide; *synonyms* (*v*) conceal, disguise, obscure, bury, cloak, mask, shelter, (*n*) cover, fur, coat, fell, skin, veil, cloud, (*adj*) darken; *antonyms* (*v*) reveal, show, expose, express.
- Tak 1. yes; synonyms (int) surely, (n) consent, acceptance, nod, (adv) ay, yea, certainly, positively, precisely, (v) acquiesce, agree, allow, grovel, (adj) obedient, submissive, 2. so; synonyms (adv) accordingly, as, consequently, hence, thus, indeed, then, therefore, insomuch, also, wherefore, (n) sol, (pron) that, (adj) likewise, 3. thus; synonyms (adv) so, thence, ergo, thusly, 4. yeah; synonyms (int) hurrah, hurray, yippee.
- такий such; *synonyms* (adv) what, (adj) like, sic, sich, slik, swich, resembling.
- **Також** 1. likewise; *synonyms* (*adv*) also, besides, furthermore, alike, further, moreover, too, equally,

- similarly, and, more, anyway, (adj) even, 2. also; synonyms (adv) likewise, withal, again, item, so, 3. too; synonyms (adv) excessively, over, overly, extremely, unduly, 4. besides; synonyms (adv) additionally, else, therewithal, beyond, but, still, thereto, therewith, yet, anyhow, (prep) except, on, beside, excepting, 5. either; synonyms (det) any, (conj) other.
- **Takci 1**. taxi; *synonyms* (*n*) cab, hack, taxicab, automobile, cabriolet, drudge, hacker, jade, nag, plug, taxiing, vehicle, minicab, (*v*) coast, transfer, **2**. cab; *synonyms* (*n*) taxi, car, fly, droshki, drosky, growler, omnibus.
- **TaκT** bar (бар); *synonyms* (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (ν) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; *antonyms* (ν) permit, allow.
- **Тактика** tactics; *synonyms* (*n*) tactic, plan, method, system, scheme, conduct, maneuver, campaign, devices, diplomacy.
- **Тактичний** tactical; *synonyms* (*adj*) tactic, advisable, delicate, expedient, planned, politic, prudent, tactful, calculated, considered, deliberate, intentional, premeditated.
- **Тактовний** nice; *synonyms* (*adj*) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, correct, decent, delicate, difficult; *antonyms* (*adj*) unpleasant, horrible.
- **Талан** fortune; *synonyms* (*n*) chance, destiny, estate, fate, fluke, accident, luck, means, abundance, assets, doom, lot, riches, wealth, blessing.
- **Талановитий** talented; *synonyms* (*adj*) able, clever, capable, gifted, accomplished, proficient, apt, versatile, ingenious, promising, bright, competent, expert, intelligent, skilled.
- **TAJAHT** talent; *synonyms* (n) gift, genius, ability, aptitude, capacity, cleverness, endowment, faculty, knack, skill, capability, flair, ingenuity, proficiency, power; *antonym* (n) inability.
- **Талія** waist; *synonyms* (n) waistline, shank, middle, belly, blouse, cannon, stem, arch, (*adi*) neck, stricture, wasp.
- **Талон** coupon; *synonyms* (n) voucher, certificate, order, ticket, debenture, dividend, draft, warrant, advertisement, coin, verifier.
- **Tam** there; *synonyms* (*adv*) here, thither, present, thereat, apparent, convenient, visible, (*adj*) adept, competent, expert, professional, reliable, skillful, trustworthy, unfailing.
- **Танення** dissolution; *synonyms* (*n*) decay, breakup, decomposition, abolition, cancellation, analysis, dismissal, annulment, death, dissipation, demise, adjournment, departure, disintegration, licentiousness.
- **танець** dance; *synonyms* (*n*) dancing, party, (*v*) bound, caper, hop, bop, cavort, play, jump, shake, skip, step, beat, dandle, prance.
- **TAHK** tank; *synonyms* (*n*) cistern, reservoir, container, cooler, belly, boiler, fermentor, jail, stomach, store, tankful, thickener, tub, lake, (*v*) fake.
- **Танок** dance; *synonyms* (*n*) dancing, party, (*v*) bound, caper, hop, bop, cavort, play, jump, shake, skip, step, beat, dandle, prance.
- **танці** dancing; *synonyms* (n) dance, galloping, (v) saltant, jumping, leaping, (adv) adance.

- **Танцівник** dancer; *synonyms* (*n*) acrobat, actor, artist, artiste, entertainer, musician, performer, singer, tripper, comedian, excursionist.
- **танцювати** 1. dance; *synonyms* (*n*) dancing, party, (*v*) bound, caper, hop, bop, cavort, play, jump, shake, skip, step, beat, dandle, prance, 2. bob; *synonyms* (*n*) shilling, (*v*) curtsy, dock, bow, toss, dip, bend, bounce, cut, jiggle, reel, tail, tap, trim, wag.
- **танцюрист** dancer; *synonyms* (n) acrobat, actor, artist, artiste, entertainer, musician, performer, singer, tripper, comedian, excursionist.
- **Tapa** boxing; *synonyms* (n) pugilism, fisticuffs, packing, sparring, backpacking, fisticuff, handyfight, parcelling, fistfight, slugfest, wadding, (*adj*) fighting.
- тариф 1. tariff; synonyms (n) duty, charge, excise, custom, tax, assessment, price, cost, fee, toll, benevolence, exactment, gavel, levy, octroi, 2. rate; synonyms (n) worth, pace, value, percentage, (v) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put, rank, 3. fare; synonyms (n) diet, aliment, food, board, table, menu, victuals, provisions, rations, schedule, (v) do, come, eat, go, feed.
- **тарілка 1**. plate; *synonyms* (*n*) dish, leaf, home, engraving, disc, armor, base, board, bowl, denture, plaque, (*v*) gild, sheet, cover, coat, **2**. dish; *synonyms* (*n*) beauty, disk, plate, platter, saucer, container, dishful, bag, (*v*) hollow, serve.
- **Тасьма** tape; *synonyms* (*n*) band, ribbon, strip, rope, cassette, seal, (*v*) record, videotape, video.
- **Tatko 1.** dad; *synonyms* (*n*) father, daddy, papa, pappa, pater, pop, sire, paterfamilias, divinity, elder, idol, popping, soda, tonic, **2**. daddy; *synonyms* (*n*) dad, boyfriend, fellow, man.
- **тато 1**. dad; *synonyms* (*n*) father, daddy, papa, pappa, pater, pop, sire, paterfamilias, divinity, elder, idol, popping, soda, tonic, **2**. daddy; *synonyms* (*n*) dad, boyfriend, fellow, man, **3**. father (батько); *synonyms* (*n*) begetter, creator, abba, beginner, forefather, founder, padre, patriarch, author, (*v*) beget, engender, create, generate, begin, breed; *antonym* (*n*) mother.
- **Τατycь** daddy; *synonyms* (n) dad, father, papa, pappa, pater, pop, boyfriend, fellow, man, popping, soda, tonic.
- **таця** tray; *synonyms* (*n*) plate, dish, basket, bassinet, case, corbeille, cradle, crate, creel, dorser, dosser, hamper, hopper, jardiniere, lapboard.
- **твань** mud; *synonyms* (n) dirt, filth, grime, ooze, sludge, soil, swamp, (adj) clay, (v) mire, muck.
- **тварина 1**. beast; *synonyms* (n) animal, monster, swine, creature, fiend, savage, barbarian, (adj) brute, bear, **2**. animal; *synonyms* (n) beast, organism, being, fauna, (adj) bodily, carnal, brutal, corporeal, physical, sensual, primitive, (adv) fleshly, **3**. creature; *synonyms* (n) individual, tool, body, entity, human, person, puppet, somebody, man, mortal, party, protege, soul, wight.
- **тварини** animal (тварина); *synonyms* (*n*) brute, creature, beast, organism, being, fauna, monster, (*adj*) bodily, carnal, brutal, corporeal, physical, sensual, primitive, (*adv*) fleshly.
- **тваринний** animal (тварина); *synonyms* (n) brute, creature, beast, organism, being, fauna, monster, (*adj*)

bodily, carnal, brutal, corporeal, physical, sensual, primitive, (*adv*) fleshly.

- твердження 1. contention; synonyms (n) competition, argument, argumentation, battle, conflict, assertion, controversy, discord, allegation, arguing, claim, difference, dispute, opposition, quarrel; antonym (n) harmony, 2. assertion; synonyms (n) affirmation, statement, avowal, charge, contention, profession, testimony, accusation, position, announcement, asseveration, averment, declaration, expression, predication, **3**. claim; *synonyms* (*n*) call, privilege, right, title, application, (v) demand, ask, assert, exact, arrogate, contend, need, require, requisition, want; antonyms (v) deny, disclaim, forfeit, 4. testimony; synonyms (n) attestation, evidence, proof, confirmation, testimonial, affidavit, demonstration, deposition, certificate, attest, verification, authority, speech, (v) witness, record, 5. statement; synonyms (n) account, communication, instruction, command, description, proposition, enunciation, bill, pronouncement, remark, word, bulletin, explanation, return, message; antonym (n) denial, **6**. proposition; synonyms (n) offer, overture, bid, motion, proposal, approach, design, plan, suggestion, premise, advance, principle, scheme, (v) proffer, suggest, 7. representation; synonyms (n) image, performance, depiction, picture, presentation, effigy, diagram, portrait, model, copy, emblem, illustration, likeness, appearance, example.
- твердий 1. hard; synonyms (adj) austere, bad, difficult, grave, severe, strong, arduous, callous, cruel, grueling, knotty, tough, (adv) firm, (v) acute, (n) rough; antonyms (adj) easy, soft, kind, merciful, simple, soggy, tender, vielding, (adv) gently, lightly, 2. solid; synonyms (adj) dense, compact, consistent, hard, real, good, fixed, massive, secure, substantial, fast, hearty, heavy, material, (v) close; antonyms (adj) unreliable, loose, gaseous, permeable, runny, transparent, watery, (n) liquid, 3. tough; synonyms (adj) tenacious, hardy, laborious, rugged, stout, sturdy, durable, leathery, robust, stubborn, enduring, (n) bully, rowdy, hoodlum, hooligan; antonyms (adj) weak, flimsy, feeble, lightweight, 4. consistent; synonyms (adj) coherent, uniform, agreeable, compatible, congruous, constant, logical, conformable, consonant, regular, unchanging, concurrent, unvarying, accordant, equable; antonyms (adj) inconsistent, erratic, contradictory, illogical, unpredictable, 5. firm; synonyms (n) company, business, (adj) stable, determined, resolute, solid, steadfast, steady, decisive, rigid, stiff, adamant, crisp, decided, (v) faithful; antonyms (adj) irresolute, hesitant, limp, 6, settled: synonyms (adi) definite, set. permanent, calm, certain, established, defined, formed, confirmed, finished, sedate, standing, quiet, done, peaceful; antonym (adj) uninhabited, 7. strong; synonyms (adj) intense, powerful, able, deep, cogent, forcible, influential, lusty, potent, sound, fierce, athletic, energetic, forceful, high; antonyms (adj) bland, delicate, faint, frail, mild, pale, slight, unconvincing, cowardly,
- **твердити** assert; *synonyms* (v) affirm, allege, claim, declare, say, argue, aver, avow, insist, maintain, protest, show, swear, announce, assure; *antonym* (v) deny.

diluted, dull, exhausted, imperceptible, tired.

- TBep\_dictb resolution; synonyms (n) decision, determination, answer, conclusion, firmness, purpose, resolve, solution, decomposition, analysis, constancy, dissolution, fortitude, perseverance, resoluteness; antown (n) indecisiveness.
- **TBep,0** firmly; *synonyms* (*adv*) firm, hard, resolutely, securely, solidly, steadfastly, strongly, unwaveringly, decidedly, closely, decisively, persistently, positively, rigidly, (*adj*) fast; *antonyms* (*adv*) loosely, weakly, halfheartedly, leniently, uncertainly.
- **тверезий** sober; *synonyms* (*adj*) serious, grave, sedate, sane, earnest, moderate, quiet, solemn, modest, abstemious, demure, dull, serene, somber, staid; *antonym* (*adj*) intoxicated.
- твій yours; synonym (adj) own.
- TBip 1. Work (po6ota); synonyms (n) exercise, business, employment, function, task, action, act, book, composition, (v) labor, operate, toil, cultivate, (adj) job, trade; antonyms (v) idle, malfunction, 2. creation; synonyms (n) cosmos, production, world, invention, conception, construction, creature, fabrication, formation, foundation, founding, piece, product, universe, work; antonyms (n) destruction, end, 3. composition; synonyms (n) arrangement, constitution, texture, alloy, amalgam, article, combination, composing, compost, compound, compromise, harmony, makeup, organization, structure.
- TBOPEHHЯ 1. creation; synonyms (n) cosmos, production, world, composition, invention, conception, construction, creature, fabrication, formation, foundation, founding, piece, product, universe; antonyms (n) destruction, end, 2. creature; synonyms (n) beast, being, brute, animal, individual, tool, body, entity, human, person, puppet, somebody, man, mortal, organism, 3. making; synonyms (n) creation, manufacture, devising, fashioning; antonym (n) downfall.
- **творець 1**. maker; *synonyms* (n) creator, manufacturer, author, architect, builder, inventor, producer, father, designer, poet; *antonym* (n) destroyer, **2**. author (автор); *synonyms* (n) writer, founder, originator, parent, generator, maker, dramatist, playwright, source, (v) compose, create, write, **3**. architect; *synonyms* (n) artificer, engineer, **4**. former; *synonyms* (adv) before, (adj) antecedent, anterior, bygone, earlier, foregoing, previous, prior, original, deceased, past, preceding, foremost, primary, (n) predecessor; *antonym* (adj) future.
- творити 1. create; *synonyms* (*v*) cause, construct, make, constitute, produce, beget, breed, build, compose, do, establish, form, generate, institute, start; *antonyms* (*v*) destroy, terminate, 2. make (робити); *synonyms* (*v*) create, fashion, force, get, give, let, compel, design, drive, erect, execute, fabricate, fetch, gain, prepare; *antonym* (*v*) lose.
- **TBODIHHЯ** creation; *synonyms* (n) cosmos, production, world, composition, invention, conception, construction, creature, fabrication, formation, foundation, founding, piece, product, universe; *antonyms* (n) destruction, end.
- **творчий 1**. creative; *synonyms* (*adj*) original, productive, imaginative, ingenious, inventive, resourceful, fertile, originative, artistic; *antonyms* (*adj*) unimaginative, uncreative, **2**. constructive; *synonyms* (*adj*) positive,

- beneficial, helpful, useful, worthwhile, practical; *antonyms* (*adj*) negative, unhelpful, destructive.
- **Tearp** theatre; *synonyms* (*n*) theater, house, arena, battleground, dramatics, dramaturgy, acting, airfield, area, bailiwick, battlefield, champaign, discipline, domain, family.
- **театральний 1**. theatrical; *synonyms* (*adj*) affected, melodramatic, dramatic, histrionic, stagy, theatric, stilted, artificial, pedantic, pretentious, spectacular, (*n*) histrionics; *antonym* (*adj*) untheatrical, **2**. dramatic; *synonyms* (*adj*) theatrical, impressive, scenic, exciting, sensational, striking, sudden, thespian; *antonyms* (*adj*) gradual, undramatic.
- **TEX** also; *synonyms* (*adv*) too, likewise, moreover, more, besides, withal, again, equally, further, item, similarly, so, (*conj*) and, furthermore.
- **Te3a** thesis; *synonyms* (*n*) dissertation, matter, argument, essay, theme, topic, hypothesis, premise, proposition, assertion, contention, composition, paper, treatise, discourse.
- **TEKCT** text; *synonyms* (n) copy, matter, script, theme, subject, words, document, book, textbook, topic, argument, contents, letterpress, manual, passage.
- **текстильний** textile; *synonyms* (n) material, cloth, fabric, stuff, tapestry, drapery.
- **TERCTYPA** texture; *synonyms* (n) structure, grain, fabric, constitution, tissue, weave, web, woof, (v) finish, make.
- **TEKTU 1.** flow; *synonyms* (n) flood, current, discharge, abound, (v) stream, course, flux, jet, run, surge, float, emanate, fall, gush, pour, **2.** stream; *synonyms* (n) flow, brook, river, spurt, rush, streak, torrent, beam, spout, ray, (v) crowd, swarm, runnel, creek, deluge; *antonym* (v) trickle.
- **TEKYЧІСТЬ** yield; *synonyms* (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; *antonyms* (v) resist, persevere.
- **телебачення 1**. television; *synonyms* (*n*) tube, telly, video, telecasting, box, display, films, monitor, picture, radio, screen, theater, audio, babysitter, eye, **2**. video; *synonyms* (*n*) television, film, movie, (*v*) tape, record.
- **ТЕЛЕВІЗІЙНИЙ** television (телебачення); *synonyms* (n) tube, telly, video, telecasting, box, display, films, monitor, picture, radio, screen, theater, audio, babysitter, eye.
- **телевізор 1**. television (телебачення); *synonyms* (*n*) tube, telly, video, telecasting, box, display, films, monitor, picture, radio, screen, theater, audio, babysitter, eye, **2**. telly; *synonym* (*n*) television.
- **телеглядачі** audience; *synonyms* (*n*) hearing, interview, attendance, house, meeting, turnout, audition, congregation, crowd, following, public, spectators, (*v*) auditory.
- **TEMETPAMA 1.** Wire; *synonyms* (*n*) cable, telegram, line, rope, cord, string, thread, flex, guy, halser, hawser, marconigram, moorings, (*v*) telegraph, electrify, **2**. cable; *synonyms* (*n*) cablegram, ribbon, twine, (*v*) wire, report.

- **ΤΕ.ΠΕΓΡΑΦ** telegraph; *synonyms* (n) telegram, telegraphy, (v) cable, wire, broadcast, electrify, forecast, foreshadow, forewarn.
- **телеграфувати 1**. wire; *synonyms* (*n*) cable, telegram, line, rope, cord, string, thread, flex, guy, halser, hawser, marconigram, moorings, (*v*) telegraph, electrify, **2**. telegraph; *synonyms* (*n*) telegraphy, (*v*) wire, broadcast, forecast, foreshadow, forewarn.
- телестудія studio; synonyms (n) atelier, cabinet, accommodation, building, bungalow, cottage, den, farmhouse, igloo, manor, mansion, terrace, villa, loft.
- **телефон 1**. telephone; *synonyms* (*n*) telephony, earpiece, (*v*) call, phone, ring, telegraph, **2**. phone; *synonyms* (*n*) earphone, headphone, receiver, handset, sound, (*v*) telephone.
- телефоніст operator; *synonyms* (n) driver, hustler, manipulator, agent, doer, speculator, actor, employee, clerk, businessperson, captain, financier, floozie, floozy, hooker.
- **телефонний** telephone (телефон); *synonyms* (*n*) telephony, earpiece, (*v*) call, phone, ring, telegraph.
- телефонувати 1. phone; *synonyms* (n) earpiece, earphone, headphone, receiver, handset, sound, (v) telephone, call, ring, 2. telephone (телефон); *synonyms* (n) telephony, (v) phone, telegraph, 3. call; *synonyms* (v) cry, bellow, name, shout, bid, summon, howl, address, baptize, cite, (n) appeal, yell, appoint, command, demand; *antonym* (v) dismiss.
- **TEJI9** calf; *synonyms* (n) calfskin, sura, colt, foal, kitten, pup, shorthorn, kid, cow, doodle, dullard, foetus, loon, lout, lown.
- Tema 1. theme; synonyms (n) matter, motif, subject, base, composition, question, stem, substance, text, motive, business, paper, topic, idea, basis, 2. topic; synonyms (n) theme, affair, issue, point, area, thing, content, field, 3. subject; synonyms (n) citizen, dependent, inferior, discipline, national, study, (adj) liable, exposed, prone, subordinate, open, amenable, (v) subdue, enslave, reduce; antonym (adj) liberated.
- **Темний 1.** dark; *synonyms* (*adj*) black, dismal, cheerless, dim, obscure, blind, blue, deep, gloomy, murky, mysterious, (*n*) cloudy, darkness, evening, night; *antonyms* (*adj*) bright, sunny, fair, clear, pale, pallid, sunlit, (*n*) light, day, **2**. obscure; *synonyms* (*adj*) dark, ambiguous, concealed, darken, hidden, incomprehensible, muddy, clandestine, confused, (*v*) hide, blur, cloud, conceal, confuse, cover; *antonyms* (*adj*) noticeable, simple, obvious, distinct, mainstream, (*v*) clarify.
- TEMП 1. bat (кажан); synonyms (n) club, rapidity, blow, cudgel, flittermouse, punch, stick, (v) hit, beat, blink, lick, slam, thrash, flutter, 2. pace; synonyms (n) walk, rate, footstep, speed, tempo, tread, celerity, fastness, run, cadence, carriage, footfall, (v) step, gait, stride; antonym (n) slowness.
- **TEMПEPAMENT 1.** temperament; *synonyms* (*n*) temper, character, disposition, nature, constitution, personality, quality, humor, spirit, composure, equanimity, mettle, calmness, heart, inclination, **2.** temper; *synonyms* (*n*) mood, condition, anger, irritation, (*v*) moderate, soften, harden, mitigate, modify, season, qualify, anneal,

- restrain, restrict, (adj) mollify; antonyms (v) intensify, upset.
- **Температура** temperature; *synonyms* (*n*) fever, heat, warmth, breathing, climate, contemperature, disease, heartbeat, pulse, (*v*) calmness, moderation, patience, sedateness, temperament, temperance.
- темрява 1. darkness; *synonyms* (*n*) dark, night, shade, shadow, blindness, duskiness, gloom, murk, cloud, cloudiness, dimness, gloominess, iniquity, mirk, murkiness; *antonyms* (*n*) light, brightness, lightness, 2. gloom; *synonyms* (*n*) desolation, blackness, darkness, depression, dusk, dreariness, dejection, despair, despondency, grief, melancholy, misery, glumness, (*v*) scowl, (*adj*) obscurity; *antonyms* (*n*) happiness, cheerfulness, 3. night; *synonyms* (*n*) evening, nighttime, twilight, (*adj*) nocturnal; *antonym* (*n*) day.
- **Тенденція 1.** tendency; *synonyms* (*n*) drift, proclivity, leaning, propensity, trend, direction, disposition, inclination, partiality, bent, course, bias, movement, penchant, predilection, **2.** trend; *synonyms* (*n*) fashion, tendency, fad, vogue, mode, run, way, (*v*) style, tend, incline, sheer, turn, verge, deviate, veer, **3.** spirit; *synonyms* (*n*) apparition, courage, ghost, life, mood, bravery, character, energy, enthusiasm, essence, heart, mind, phantom, soul, (*adj*) animation; *antonyms* (*n*) letharey, body.
- тендер tender; *synonyms* (*adj*) affectionate, painful, loving, sensitive, soft, sore, compassionate, delicate, fond, gentle, mild, (*v*) proffer, (*n*) offer, bid, overture; *antonyms* (*adj*) tough, hard, hardhearted, rubbery, rough.
- тендітний 1. delicate; synonyms (adj) fine, accurate, breakable, dainty, fragile, refined, tender, beautiful, brittle, difficult, frail, nice, sensitive, soft, slim; antonyms (adj) strong, inelegant, robust, heavy, sturdy, tough, 2. fragile; synonyms (adj) delicate, flimsy, weak, faint, feeble, frangible, insubstantial, shaky, slender, puny, brash, infirm, short, slight, thin; antonyms (adj) unbreakable, substantial, permanent, 3. frail; synonyms (adj) light, rickety, decrepit, sick, unhealthy, fallible, impotent, flabby, ailing, unsound, helpless, low, powerless, sickly, (v) shattery, 4. slim; synonyms (adj) narrow, lean, remote, skinny, lithe, meager, small, spare, taper, tenuous, trim, (v) reduce, slenderize, cut, sly; antonyms (adj) fat, hefty, plump, stocky, wide.
- **TEHETA** net; *synonyms* (*adj*) final, last, (*n*) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, (*v*) mesh, clear, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; *antonym* (*v*) gross.
- теніс tennis; synonym (n) cricket.
- **TEOKPATIS** hierarchy; *synonyms* (n) order, rank, class, apparatus, executive, hagiocracy, hierocracy, scale, ladder, ranking, society, tree.
- **теологічний** theological; *synonyms* (*adj*) religious, clerical, theologic, apostolic, canonical, churchly, deistic, divine, doctrinal, ecclesiastical, metaphysical, scriptural, theistic.
- **теологія** theology; *synonyms* (*n*) divinity, deity, religion, faith, immortal, theologics, holiness, mysticism, spirituality, (*adj*) godhead.
- **теоретичний** 1. theoretical; *synonyms* (*adj*) hypothetical, abstract, speculative, theoretic, ideal, academic, conjectural, impractical; *antonyms* (*adj*)

- practical, concrete, real, scientific, **2**. speculative; **synonyms** (*adj*) risky, theoretical, inquisitive, notional, reflective, chancy, insecure, visionary, tentative, bad, imaginary, (*v*) contemplative, meditative, pensive, thoughtful.
- **Teopis** theory; *synonyms* (*n*) supposition, assumption, conjecture, guess, hypothesis, speculation, idea, opinion, surmise, belief, presumption, thought, concept, postulation, postulate; *antonym* (*n*) fact.
- **Tenep 1.** presently; *synonyms* (*adv*) directly, immediately, now, shortly, soon, currently, instantly, just, forthwith, quickly, **2.** now; *synonyms* (*adv*) here, presently, already, nowadays, straight, today, right, promptly, straightaway, (*adj*) current, present, trendy, immediate, fashionable, (*prep*) because; *antonym* (*adv*) later, **3.** nowadays.
- теперішній present; *synonyms* (*adj*) grant, confer, (*n*) gift, donation, (*v*) bestow, display, give, introduce, prefer, deliver, donate, offer, perform, gratuity, award; *antonyms* (*adj*) missing, (*n*) past, future, history, (*v*) withdraw, (*adv*) absent.
- **Теплий** warm; *synonyms* (*adj*) hot, affectionate, tender, ardent, cordial, fervent, lively, fond, loving, earnest, caring, enthusiastic, genial, glowing, hearty; *antonyms* (*adj*) aloof, cold, unfriendly, reserved, hostile, (v) cool, chill
- **Теплиця 1**. greenhouse; *synonyms* (*n*) glasshouse, conservatory, nursery, grotto, hermitage, summerhouse, orangery, **2**. stove; *synonyms* (*n*) range, furnace, heater, ambit, chain, compass, grasp, orbit, reach, scope, warmer.
- **тепло 1.** warmth; *synonyms* (*n*) glow, heat, temperature, fervor, geniality, passion, warmness, affection, tenderness, fire, fondness, friendliness, hotness, sympathy, (*adj*) verve; *antonyms* (*n*) aloofness, chill, chilliness, coldness, coolness, unfriendliness, **2**. heat; *synonyms* (*n*) summer, warmth, ardor, caloric, estrus, fury, (*v*) bake, burn, anger, chafe, foment, inflame, (*adj*) fever, excitement, flush; *antonyms* (*n*) cold, (*v*) cool.
- **тепловий** thermal; *synonyms* (*adj*) caloric, thermic, warm, convection.
- **Теплота** heat; *synonyms* (*n*) glow, fervor, summer, warmth, ardor, caloric, estrus, fire, (*v*) bake, burn, anger, chafe, (*adj*) fever, excitement, passion; *antonyms* (*n*) cold, chill, (*v*) cool.
- **терапевтичний** therapeutic; *synonyms* (*adj*) curative, remedial, healing, medicinal, therapeutical, alterative, sanative.
- **ΤΕΡΑΠΙЯ** therapy; synonyms (n) cure, medication, remedy, treatment, healing, analysis, answer, antidote, care, medicine, mixture, preparation, solution, psychoanalysis, tonic.
- **Tepaca** terrace; *synonyms* (n) patio, bench, veranda, porch, balcony, yard, accommodation, backyard, building, bungalow, cottage, farmhouse, green, grounds, igloo.
- **терези** balance; *synonyms* (*n*) poise, symmetry, excess, remainder, account, complement, counterpoise, credit, (*v*) counterbalance, adjust, offset, compensate, contrast, settle, audit; *antonyms* (*n*) imbalance, (*v*) unbalance.

- **територіальний** territorial; *synonyms* (*adj*) local, landed, predial, colonial.
- **територія 1.** territory; *synonyms* (n) district, dominion, area, field, land, region, state, country, domain, kingdom, province, realm, jurisdiction, expanse, possession, **2.** terrain; *synonyms* (n) ground, grounds, territory, topography, scenery.
- **термальний** thermal; *synonyms* (*adj*) caloric, thermic, warm, convection.
- **TepMiH** term; *synonyms* (*n*) name, expression, period, style, title, boundary, limit, spell, stipulation, time, duration, phrase, (*v*) call, designate, entitle.
- **Терміна**л terminal; *synonyms* (*adj*) final, last, definitive, endmost, fatal, concluding, incurable, (*n*) depot, end, extremity, terminus, boundary, station, destination.
- **термінальний** terminal; *synonyms* (*adj*) final, last, definitive, endmost, fatal, concluding, incurable, (*n*) depot, end, extremity, terminus, boundary, station, destination.
- **терміновий** urgent; *synonyms* (*adj*) pressing, importunate, imperative, instant, immediate, quick, earnest, critical, serious, vital, hasty, insistent, compelling, (*v*) important, clamorous; *antonym* (*adj*) trivial.
- **Терміновість** urgency; *synonyms* (*n*) pressure, haste, necessity, hurry, press, insistence, stress, exigency, instancy, compulsion, importance, speed, emergency, need, rush.
- **TepMiHo.Toris** terminology; *synonyms* (n) language, nomenclature, terms, vocabulary, phraseology, definition, dialect, expressions, lyric, phrasing, speech, wording, words, argot, gobbledygook.
- **термічний** thermal; *synonyms* (*adj*) caloric, thermic, warm, convection.
- **Tepop** terror; *synonyms* (n) alarm, dread, fright, awe, dismay, fear, scare, consternation, horror, panic, anxiety, apprehension, scourge, trepidation, brat.
- **тероризм** terrorism; *synonyms* (*n*) disorder, murder, nihilism, tyranny, violence, (*adj*) intimidation.
- **Тероризувати** соw (корова); *synonyms* (*v*) bully, intimidate, awe, browbeat, daunt, terrorize, discourage, frighten, overawe, threaten, abash.
- **TEPOPUCT** terrorist; *synonyms* (n) anarchist, bully, communist, radical, (adj) alarmist, (v) murderer, assassin, butcher, slayer.
- **терпеливий** patient; *synonyms* (*adj*) invalid, forbearing, passive, calm, enduring, resigned, tolerant, uncomplaining, stoical, lenient, meek, persistent, considerate, indefatigable; *antonym* (*adj*) impatient.
- терпимість tolerance; synonyms (n) endurance, allowance, indulgence, leniency, patience, lenience, margin, permissiveness, consideration, kindness, leeway, forbearance, mercy, approval, permission; antonyms (n) intolerance, narrow-mindedness, bigotry, chauvinism, extremism.
- **терпіння 1.** patience; *synonyms* (*n*) endurance, forbearance, fortitude, longanimity, equanimity, resignation, tolerance, restraint, composure, persistence, solitaire, sufferance, indulgence, (*v*) moderation, calmness; *antonym* (*n*) impatience, **2**. bearing; *synonyms* (*n*) carriage, demeanor, appearance, approach,

- aspect, attitude, conduct, deportment, direction, manner, respect, air, aim, behavior, comportment.
- **терпіти** tolerate; *synonyms* (*v*) suffer, bear, endure, let, permit, take, abide, allow, brook, stand, stomach, support, sustain, undergo, (*adj*) accept.
- **терплячий** patient; *synonyms* (adj) invalid, forbearing, passive, calm, enduring, resigned, tolerant, uncomplaining, stoical, lenient, meek, persistent, considerate, indefatigable; *antonym* (adj) impatient.
- **Терплячість** patience; *synonyms* (*n*) endurance, forbearance, fortitude, longanimity, equanimity, resignation, tolerance, restraint, composure, persistence, solitaire, sufferance, indulgence, (*v*) moderation, calmness; *antonym* (*n*) impatience.
- **Tepts** rubbing; *synonyms* (*n*) attrition, friction, abrasion, detrition, grinding, resistance.
- **TECT** test; *synonyms* (*n*) trial, audition, experiment, examination, measure, (*v*) assay, essay, examine, prove, quiz, sample, check, try, analyze, attempt.
- **TEXHIKA 1.** engineering; *synonyms* (*n*) mechanism, technology, architecture, business, commerce, complicity, machinery, trade, production, (*adj*) manufacturing, **2.** technique; *synonyms* (*n*) approach, means, method, skill, fashion, procedure, process, system, knack, style, manner, way, proficiency, **3.** technology; *synonyms* (*n*) engineering, apparatus, competence, equipment, experience, expertise, gear, knowledge, machines, savvy, tackle, technicology, (*adj*) technicality, **4.** mechanism; *synonyms* (*n*) appliance, contrivance, device, machine, action, instrument, mechanics, agency, vehicle, operation, medium, gadget, organization, tool.
- **технічний** technical; *synonyms* (*adj*) technological, industrial, shipshape, technic, complex, mysterious, obscure, perplexing, profound, puzzling, rarefied, technicological, mechanical, scholarly, abstruse.
- **технічно** technically; *synonyms* (*adv*) correctly, duly, fairly, justly, lawfully, legally, logically, methodically, ostensibly, supposedly, systematically, exactly, industrially, mechanically, precisely.
- **технологічний** technological; *synonyms* (*adj*) technical, technologic, technicological, industrial, mechanical.
- **технологія 1**. technology; *synonyms* (*n*) engineering, apparatus, competence, equipment, experience, expertise, gear, knowledge, machinery, machines, proficiency, savvy, tackle, technicology, (*adj*) technicality, **2**. processing; *synonyms* (*n*) working, refinement, developing, manufacture, dispensation, conversion, **3**. technique; *synonyms* (*n*) approach, means, method, skill, fashion, procedure, process, system, knack, style, manner, way.
- **Te4is** 1. course; *synonyms* (n) stream, flow, bearing, career, current, path, road, route, track, channel, circuit, class, method, (v) run, chase, 2. flow; *synonyms* (n) flood, discharge, abound, rush, (v) course, flux, jet, surge, float, emanate, fall, gush, pour, seep, well, 3. current; *synonyms* (adj) common, contemporary, fashionable, instant, actual, fresh, modern, new, popular, present, prevalent, rife, (n) afloat, movement, (*prep*) tide; *antonyms* (adj) obsolete, past, old, old-fashioned,

- previous, **4**. stream; *synonyms* (*n*) brook, river, spurt, streak, torrent, beam, spout, ray, rain, (*v*) crowd, swarm, runnel, creek, deluge, squirt; *antonym* (*v*) trickle.
- **Tu** thou; *synonyms* (*n*) chiliad, g, grand, m, curtilage, gee, gigabyte, gm, gram, gramme, green, grounds, jet, kelvin, kilobyte.
- **THIP** tiger; *synonyms* (*n*) cat, hostler, jockey, ostler, endangered, male, mania, obsession, phobia, (*adj*) demon, dragon, fury, lion, manly, muscular.
- **ТИЖДЕНЬ** Week; *synonyms* (n) hebdomad, day, hour, minute, second, year, sennight, sevennight, time, workweek.
- тижневий weekly; synonyms (adv) hebdomadally, (n) magazine, journal, newspaper, periodical, (v) quotidian, tertian.
- **ТИЖНЕВИК** weekly; *synonyms* (*adv*) hebdomadally, (*n*) magazine, journal, newspaper, periodical, (*v*) quotidian, tertian.
- **THAT rear**; *synonyms* (*adj*) back, erect, after, (*n*) posterior, tail, backside, behind, bottom, (*v*) breed, nurture, raise, educate, foster, nurse, build; *antonyms* (*adj*) fore, (*n*) front.
- **ТИЛЬНИЙ** геаг; *synonyms* (*adj*) back, erect, after, (*n*) posterior, tail, backside, behind, bottom, (*v*) breed, nurture, raise, educate, foster, nurse, build; *antonyms* (*adj*) fore, (*n*) front.
- тимчасовий 1. provisional; synonyms (adj) conditional, makeshift, tentative, probationary, interim, provisionary, temporary, experimental, acting, provisory, qualified, transient, given, probative, probatory; antonyms (adj) permanent, definite, 2. temporary; synonyms (adj) ephemeral, passing, temporal, momentary, fleeting, impermanent, provisional, transitory, brief, fugitive, stopgap, irregular, substitute; antonyms (adj) continuous, enduring, eternal, everlasting, long-term, 3. interim; synonyms (adj) concomitance, concurrence, (n) interval, interlude, distance, intermission, lag, pause, while, (adv) meantime, 4. casual; synonyms (adj) accidental, adventitious, careless, chance, nonchalant, occasional, coincidental, contingent, cursory, easy, fortuitous, haphazard, insouciant, lax, offhand; antonyms (adj) deliberate, formal, thorough.
- **THM 4acobo** temporarily; *synonyms* (*adv*) provisionally, briefly, awhile, conditionally, momentarily, fleetingly, shortly; *antonyms* (*adv*) permanently, enduringly, everlastingly.
- THH 1. fence; synonyms (n) enclosure, barrier, hurdle, pale, bar, boundary, barricade, fencing, (v) hedge, wall, contend, enclose, parry, quibble, evade, 2. hedge; synonyms (n) fence, hedging, bush, hedgerow, (v) dodge, fudge, elude, skirt, avoid, circumvent, duck, equivocate, pen, border, prevaricate.
- THII 1. type; synonyms (n) pattern, character, kind, nature, sort, breed, category, stamp, brand, emblem, font, form, manner, print, (adj) model, 2. kind; synonyms (n) helpful, benign, class, gentle, type, variety, benevolent, description, (adj) friendly, generous, good, humane, affectionate, charitable, considerate; antonyms (adj) unkind, callous, cruel, hardhearted, mean, merciless, nasty, spiteful, uncaring, upsetting, disagreeable, unfeeling, 3. specimen; synonyms (n) exemplar,

- sample, example, instance, copy, person, illustration, representative.
- типовий 1. typical; synonyms (adj) characteristic, regular, classic, distinctive, model, average, natural, figurative, conventional, distinguishing, emblematic, symbolic, usual, (v) normal, representative; antonyms (adj) atypical, unusual, uncharacteristic, unconventional,
   2. characteristic; synonyms (adj) individual, typical, original, special, specific, proper, (n) badge, attribute, sign, character, feature, peculiar, peculiarity, point, (v) demonstrative; antonym (adj) common,
   3. representative; synonyms (adj) illustrative, (n) agent, delegate, deputy, envoy, proxy, ambassador, emissary, instance, member, substitute, congressman, example, exponent, (v) represent.
- **Tupa** 1. circulation; *synonyms* (n) dissemination, diffusion, distribution, currency, delivery, dispersal, dispersion, gyration, revolution, rotation, round, spread, spreading, turn, airing, 2. edition; *synonyms* (n) version, print, circulation, copy, issue, number, adaptation, book, rendering, translation, variation, compilation, run, anthology, collection, 3. printing; *synonyms* (n) impression, imprint, type, duplicating, copying, belief, depression, effect, feeling, notion, opinion, picture, embossing, printmaking.
- **THPAHIA** oppression; *synonyms* (*n*) injustice, abuse, despotism, tyranny, weight, dictatorship, stress, wrong, severity, violence, compression, (*v*) hardship, grievance, (*adj*) autocracy, molestation.
- THER 1. pressure; synonyms (n) force, compulsion, constraint, duress, exigency, influence, insistence, load, pinch, urge, weight, emergency, (v) drive, press, coerce; antonym (n) persuasion, 2. stress; synonyms (n) accent, emphasis, pressure, tension, importance, effort, accentuation, anxiety, (v) strain, emphasize, accentuate, emphasise, punctuate, underline, trouble, 3. enforcement; synonyms (n) coercion, execution, performance, coaction, effect, administration, overflow, fulfilling, impulsion, lash, necessitation, prescription, spur, whip.
- **TUCHEHHЯ** pressure; *synonyms* (*n*) force, compulsion, constraint, duress, exigency, influence, insistence, load, pinch, urge, weight, emergency, (*v*) drive, press, coerce; *antonym* (*n*) persuasion.
- **TUCHYTU** press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- **TUCHSBA** jam; *synonyms* (n) crush, crowd, fix, squeeze, congestion, conserve, dilemma, hole, (v) block, cram, bar, fill, force, gorge, hinder; *antonym* (v) free.
- **TUCS 44** thousand; *synonyms* (n) chiliad, grand, m, g, thou, curtilage, gee, gigabyte, gm, gram, gramme, green, grounds, heap, jet.
- THTYJI title; synonyms (n) call, designation, caption, claim, designate, appellation, denomination, epithet, interest, (v) name, style, term, entitle, (adj) right, ownership.
- **ТИТУ.ЛОВАНИЙ** noble; *synonyms* (*adj*) dignified, imposing, magnificent, glorious, distinguished, elevated, exalted, generous, high, impressive, majestic, patrician, (*n*) grand, excellent, (*v*) great; *antonyms* (*adj*) lowerclass, selfish, shameful, humble, dishonorable, lowly.

- **THTYJYBATH** title; *synonyms* (n) call, designation, caption, claim, designate, appellation, denomination, epithet, interest, (v) name, style, term, entitle, (adj) right, ownership.
- тихий 1. quiet; synonyms (adj) still, lull, pacify, cool, gentle, motionless, peaceful, (v) appease, moderate, assuage, allay, (n) calm, hush, compose, ease; antonyms (adj) loud, noisy, talkative, vociferous, active, (n) noise, 2. calm; synonyms (adj) quiet, tranquil, bland, composed, mild, sedate, (v) easy, mollify, steady, tranquilize, abate, alleviate, becalm, placate, (n) equanimity; antonyms (adj) agitated, angry, nervous, stormy, wild, annoyed, anxious, enraged, frantic, frightened, intense, irritable, (v) agitate, upset, (n) agitation, 3. peaceful; synonyms (adj) peaceable, even, meek, peace, placid, silent, amicable, halcyon, serene, untroubled, collected, harmonious, restful, smooth, soft; antonyms (adj) aggressive, tense, violent, 4. soft; synonyms (adj) light, limp, balmy, delicate, slack, loose, clement, faint, flabby, flaccid, frail, lenient, pliant, (v) feeble, low; antonyms (adj) hard, firm, harsh, hoarse, rough, solid, stiff, alcoholic, shrill, strong, 5. low (низький); synonyms (adj) contemptible, abject, humble, ignoble, base, blue, common, deep, dejected, depressed, down, downcast, downhearted, mean, (n) depression; antonyms (adj) cheerful, happy, highpitched, important, piercing, (n) high, 6. still; synonyms (adv) however, but, nevertheless, yet, more, nonetheless, (adj) silence, quiescent, inactive, mute, equable, hushed, immobile, noiseless, (v) soothe; antonyms (adj) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, 7. pacific; synonyms (adj) conciliatory, sober, 8. silent; synonyms (adj) dumb, tacit, inarticulate, inaudible, incommunicative, mum, reserved, reticent, taciturn, implicit, soundless, speechless, dormant, unpronounced, close; antonyms (adj) spoken, explicit, open, 9. mild; synonyms (adj) kindly, gracious, benign, docile, kind, sweet, affable, fine, indulgent, temperate, compliant, amiable, flat. merciful, benignant; antonyms (adj) extreme, pungent, severe, sharp, spicy, barbed, fierce, great, hot, incisive, passionate, powerful, scathing, wintry.
- THXO 1. small; synonyms (adj) little, minute, narrow, fine, inadequate, insignificant, low, minor, petty, slight, light, remote, cramped, young, limited; antonyms (adj) bulky, colossal, considerable, enormous, extra-large, great, huge, sizeable, giant, major, (sym) big, large, 2. low (НИЗЬКИЙ); synonyms (adj) contemptible, abject, humble, ignoble, base, blue, common, deep, dejected, depressed, down, downcast, downhearted, (adv) gentle, (n) depression; antonyms (adj) cheerful, happy, high-pitched, loud, important, piercing, (n) high, 3. quietly; synonyms (adv) peacefully, gently, calmly, lightly, quiet, softly, secretly, serenely, silently, soft, stilly, tenderly, discreetly, restfully; antonyms (adv) loudly, noisily, harshly, raucously, vociferously, anxiously, energetically.
- **THIMA 1.** Silence; *synonyms* (*n*) quiet, calm, lull, mum, muteness, quietness, (*v*) still, allay, mute, pacify, gag, muffle, muzzle, (*int*) hush, (*adj*) appease; *antonyms* (*n*) noise, sound, **2.** calm; *synonyms* (*adj*) peaceful, tranquil, bland, (*v*) assuage, cool, easy, moderate,

- mollify, steady, tranquilize, abate, alleviate, becalm, compose, (n) equanimity; antonyms (adj) agitated, angry, nervous, stormy, wild, annoyed, anxious, enraged, frantic, frightened, intense, irritable, (v) agitate, upset, (n) agitation, 3. still; synonyms (adv) however, but, nevertheless, yet, (adj) silence, quiescent, serene, silent, inactive, motionless, peace, placid, sedate, (v) soothe, ease; antonyms (adj) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, (n) noisy, 4. quiet; synonyms (adj) gentle, collected, composed, dull, harmonious, hushed, low, modest, muted, noiseless, peaceable, (v) repose, quell, (n) peacefulness, leisure; antonyms (adj) loud, talkative, vociferous, active, 5. peace (Mup); synonyms (n) harmony, serenity, agreement, amity, accord, composure, concord, coolness, heartsease, order, pacification, rest, truce, armistice, friendship; antonyms (n) chaos, conflict, uproar, commotion.
- **Tikatu** escape; *synonyms* (v) elude, break, dodge, avoid, evade, run, bolt, circumvent, leave, duck, bilk, (n) leak, avoidance, evasion, outlet; *antonyms* (v) capture, return.
- **тілесний** bodily; *synonyms* (*adj*) corporeal, material, physical, animal, carnal, corporal, personal, real, sensual, somatic, (*adv*) altogether, fleshly; *antonyms* (*adj*) mental, spiritual.
- Ti.To 1. body; synonyms (n) cadaver, corpse, matter, organization, carcass, cluster, consistency, figure, mass, set, aggregate, association, entity, amount, bulk; antonym (n) spirit, 2. flesh; synonyms (n) brawn, mortality, beef, anatomy, chassis, form, frame, humanity, mankind, meat, muscle, pulp, (adj) carnality, concupiscence, lust, 3. corpus; synonyms (n) body, substance, material, principal, stuff, pabulum, core, element, hyle, parenchyma, principle, quantity, substratum, dealer, head.
- тільки 1. only; synonyms (adv) alone, but, exclusively, just, merely, barely, entirely, simply, however, (adj) exclusive, individual, lone, one, sole, all, 2. merely; synonyms (adv) only, purely, exactly, absolutely, solely, hardly, 3. but; synonyms (conj) while, (adv) though, yet, if, nevertheless, nonetheless, still, unless, (prep) besides, except, excluding, save, (n) boundary, bounds, bourn, 4. barely; synonyms (adv) scarcely, narrowly, scantily, scarce, slightly; antonym (adv) almost, 5. just; synonyms (adv) newly, (adj) fair, right, correct, equitable, accurate, honest, impartial, fit, good, reasonable, righteous, upright, appropriate, definite; antonyms (adj) unfair, biased, wrong.
- тінь 1. shadow; *synonyms* (n) shade, ghost, tail, trace, darkness, hint, apparition, follower, gloom, phantom, reflection, (v) eclipse, follow, obscure, overshadow, 2. shade; *synonyms* (n) screen, tinge, color, hue, blind, cloud, conceal, dye, nuance, tone, look, (v) darken, shadow, tint, cover; *antonyms* (n) light, brightness.
- **Tinatu** beat; *synonyms* (v) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (n) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; *antonym* (v) lose.
- тісний 1. narrow; synonyms (adj) close, limited, insular, little, cramped, illiberal, mean, (v) confined, contract, limit, lessen, constrict, shrink, abridge, dwindle; antonyms (adj) wide, broad, comprehensive, extensive, (v) widen, extend, 2. tight; synonyms (adj) compact,

- firm, parsimonious, taut, secure, snug, tense, drunk, miserly, rigorous, sparing, (v) narrow, fast, stingy, near; *antonyms* (adj) loose, baggy, generous, slack, (adv) loosely.
- тіснити press; synonyms (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adi) constrain.
- **TicHo 1**. closely; *synonyms* (*adv*) tightly, close, narrowly, nearly, intimately, strictly, thickly, almost, accurately, attentively, carefully, exactly, intently, near, precisely; *antonyms* (*adv*) distantly, loosely, **2**. narrowly; *synonyms* (*adv*) barely, hardly, just, closely, straitly, personally, scantly, streite, contractedly, meticulously, painstakingly, parsimoniously, penuriously, scrutinizingly, sparingly; *antonym* (*adv*) generally.
- **тістечко** cake; *synonyms* (n) bar, block, pastry, lump, pie, (v) harden, set, (adj) clot, fix.
- Titka aunt; synonyms (n) auntie, aunty, uncle, nephew, niece
- тішити delight; synonyms (n) joy, amusement, pleasure, rejoicing, bliss, delectation, gladness, (v) charm, amuse, please, ravish, captivate, cheer, enrapture, gratify; antonyms (n) sorrow, misery, (v) depress, displease.
- **тканина 1.** fabric; *synonyms* (*n*) building, cloth, composition, frame, construction, framework, material, fiber, performance, anatomy, organization, production, stuff, (*v*) edifice, structure, **2.** cloth; *synonyms* (*n*) fabric, cover, rag, textile, calling, net, (*v*) napkin, **3.** tissue; *synonyms* (*n*) texture, web, lump, heap, cobweb, congeries, film, grain, lace, pile, rouleau, (*v*) weave, (*adj*) mass, bulk, **4.** textile; *synonyms* (*n*) tapestry, drapery.
- тлінний frail; synonyms (adj) brittle, fragile, delicate, flimsy, breakable, light, rickety, slender, slim, dainty, decrepit, fine, (v) weak, feeble, faint; antonyms (adj) strong, substantial, robust.
- TJO background; synonyms (n) backdrop, groundwork, setting, basis, context, education, environment, scene, backcloth, panorama, atmosphere, experience, ground, information, preparation.
- **T.T.YMA 4 VEH HA** 1. explanation; *synonyms* (*n*) account, annotation, commentary, definition, description, exposition, excuse, gloss, interpretation, justification, solution, key, answer, caption, apology; *antonym* (*n*) mystery, **2**. comment; *synonyms* (*n*) critique, note, censure, criticism, explanation, mention, observation, reflection, animadversion, feature, (*ν*) annotate, remark, notice, discourse, expound, **3**. interpretation; *synonyms* (*n*) version, construction, clarification, illustration, interpreting, translation, analysis, performance, reading, understanding, explication, evaluation, meaning, paraphrase, rendering, **4**. reading (ЧИТАННЯ); *synonyms* (*n*) recital, learning, lection, study, erudition, lore, presentation, recitation, scholarship, light, narration, (*ν*) read.
- тлумачити 1. explain; synonyms (v) comment, elucidate, interpret, account, clarify, decipher, define, describe, enlighten, excuse, explicate, expound, gloss, solve, denote; antonym (v) confuse, 2. comment; synonyms (n) annotation, commentary, critique, note, censure, criticism, explanation, mention, observation, reflection, animadversion, (v) annotate, remark, notice,

- discourse, **3**. interpret; *synonyms* (*v*) construe, illustrate, read, understand, explain, render, depict, illuminate, consider, represent, take, translate, clear, restate. fathom.
- **TOGTO** namely; *synonyms* (*adv*) videlicet, viz, scilicet, expressly, nominately, explicitly, i.e, specially, viz, wit.
- TOBAP 1. commodity; synonyms (n) merchandise, article, product, object, thing, goods, ware, effects, movable, something, valuable, accommodation, advantage, asset, belonging, 2. goods; synonyms (n) cargo, freight, belongings, commodity, estate, chattels, commodities, produce, property, stuff, wealth, load, consignment, gear, (v) furniture, 3. article (CTATTA); synonyms (n) section, chapter, clause, composition, discourse, entity, essay, feature, paper, report, review, story, passage, condition, dissertation.
- **TOBAPH** goods; *synonyms* (n) cargo, freight, belongings, commodity, merchandise, product, estate, chattels, commodities, effects, produce, property, stuff, wealth, load
- товариство 1. association; synonyms (n) affiliation, alliance, connection, assembly, affinity, company, fellowship, link, partnership, society, syndicate, congress, meeting, band, (v) assemblage, 2. fellowship; synonyms (n) brotherhood, community, companionship, communion, familiarity, camaraderie, association, acquaintance, body, club, family, fraternity, corporation, (adj) intercourse, intimacy, 3. society (суспільство); synonyms (n) institution, public, circle, people, commonwealth, group, guild, order, folk, friendship, gild, league, organization, party, union, 4. company; synonyms (n) business, cohort, collection, brigade, bevy, caller, companion, corps, crew, firm, troop, army, bunch, (v) accompany, consort; antonym (n) solitude, 5. institution; synonyms (n) creation, establishment, institute, formation, asylum, founding, academy, custom, foundation, initiation, tradition, induction, practice, college, organisation, **6**. partnership; *synonyms* (n) copartnership, participation, confederation, coalition, combination, cooperation, federation, house.
- товариш 1. mate; synonyms (n) match, companion, partner, associate, compeer, consort, fellow, friend, spouse, husband, colleague, (v) equal, copulate, couple, (adj) comrade, 2. fellow; synonyms (n) boy, brother, chap, peer, buddy, dude, dog, counterpart, escort, beau, blighter, boyfriend, confrere, cuss, (v) concomitant, 3. companion; synonyms (n) mate, chum, assistant, acquaintance, attendant, familiar, pal, playmate, chaperon, follower, helper, (v) accompany, company, (adj) ally, accomplice; antonym (n) enemy, 4. friend; synonyms (n) crony, advocate, booster, connection, wellwisher, cohort, patron, proponent, supporter, admirer, champion; antonyms (n) foe, stranger, rival.
- **товарний** goods; *synonyms* (n) cargo, freight, belongings, commodity, merchandise, product, estate, chattels, commodities, effects, produce, property, stuff, wealth. load.
- **ΤΟΒΑΡΟΟΘΜΊΗ** truck; *synonyms* (*n*) traffic, car, cart, trade, van, bogie, automobile, cap, crest, motortruck, (*ν*) exchange, barter, swap, swop, transport.

- **товкти** pound; *synonyms* (*v*) beat, pen, bang, crush, flap, grind, hammer, maul, palpitate, thump, mash, buffet, grate, baste, bruise.
- **TOBILITUCS 1.** crowd; *synonyms* (n) huddle, swarm, collection, crew, press, circle, cluster, army, assembly, concourse, congregation, (v) bunch, flock, squeeze, compress; *antonym* (v) disperse, **2.** mob; *synonyms* (n) crowd, gang, pack, mass, horde, band, rabble, company, clamor, body, group, herd, masses, (v) throng, crush.
- **товстий** 1. fat; *synonyms* (*adj*) stout, corpulent, dense, thick, bulky, fatty, fertile, fleshy, gainful, greasy, great, (*n*) avoirdupois, blubber, cream, (*v*) fatten; *antonyms* (*adj*) thin, slim, skinny, slender, **2**. thick; *synonyms* (*adj*) compact, stupid, crowded, dull, heavy, opaque, slow, stocky, close, deep, dim, familiar, fat, gross, intimate; *antonyms* (*adj*) intelligent, bright, sparse, clever, diluted, fine, slight, transparent.
- товщина thickness; *synonyms* (n) density, consistency, width, layer, heaviness, body, breadth, bulk, compactness, crassitude, diameter, substance.
- **тоді** then; *synonyms* (*adv*) so, accordingly, afterward, again, consequently, later, (*conj*) therefore.
- **тодішній** then; *synonyms* (*adv*) so, accordingly, afterward, again, consequently, later, (*conj*) therefore.
- **TOH** speaker; *synonyms* (n) loudspeaker, narrator, orator, president, spokesman, conversationalist, chairman, talker, utterer, principal.
- **токарний** turning; *synonyms* (*adj*) revolving, rotating, rotary, spinning, wheeling, winding, (*n*) turn, revolution, bend, deviation, conversion, diversion, version.
- **ТОКСИЧНИЙ** toxic; *synonyms* (*adj*) poisonous, noxious, venomous, deadly, harmful, virulent, lethal; *antonyms* (*adj*) harmless, nontoxic.
- **толерантність** tolerance; *synonyms* (*n*) endurance, allowance, indulgence, leniency, patience, lenience, margin, permissiveness, consideration, kindness, leeway, forbearance, mercy, approval, permission; *antonyms* (*n*) intolerance, narrow-mindedness, bigotry, chauvinism, extremism.
- **TOM** Volume; *synonyms* (n) bulk, size, book, magnitude, mass, quantity, dimension, amount, capacity, intensity, loudness, tome, journal, (adj) deal, pot; *antonym* (n) quietness.
- **TOMAT** tomato; *synonyms* (*n*) cranberry, female, girl, prostitute, woman.
- TOMY 1. therefore; synonyms (adv) consequently, accordingly, hence, so, thence, thus, (conj) because, since, then, ergo, for, 2. ago; synonyms (adv) formerly, earlier, erst, back, over, backwards, afterwards, erewhile, syne, whilom, contrarily, reflexively, (adj) past, agone, 3. thus; synonyms (adv) therefore, thusly, 4. so; synonyms (adv) as, indeed, insomuch, also, wherefore,
- (n) sol, (pron) that, (adj) likewise. **TOH** tone; synonyms (n) character, note, accent, air, shade, sound, spirit, timbre, tinge, tint, manner, disposition, feel, feeling, (v) color.
- **ТОНАЛЬНІСТЬ** mood; *synonyms* (*n*) humor, atmosphere, climate, disposition, air, attitude, feeling, mode, temper, character, condition, humour, modality, state, sulk.

- тонкий 1. thin; synonyms (adj) flimsy, gaunt, lean, light, slight, tenuous, emaciated, fine, rare, slim, sparse, (v) slender, dilute, meager, sheer; antonyms (adj) thick, fat, concentrated, chubby, plump, wide, broad, heavy, (v) thicken, 2. slim; synonyms (adj) narrow, thin, remote, skinny, lithe, feeble, frail, small, spare, taper, trim, (v) reduce, slenderize, cut, sly; antonyms (adj) hefty, stocky, 3. fine; synonyms (adj) delicate, agreeable, dainty, brave, capital, elegant, excellent, nice, delightful, acute, admirable, alright, (n) penalty, amercement, (v) punish; antonyms (adj) poor, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, 4. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, fastidious, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, correct, decent, difficult, enjoyable, exact, particular, precise; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible, 5. slender; synonyms (adj) little, faint, lissom, scanty, exiguous, minute, graceful, lissome, svelte, refined, mean, short, inadequate, (v) lank, scant, 6. subtle; synonyms (adj) sharp, astute, elusive, exquisite, insidious, discerning, cunning, ingenious, ethereal, keen, skillful, (v) shrewd, crafty, sagacious, dexterous; antonyms (adj) obvious, loud.
- тонути sink; *synonyms* (*n*) sag, basin, (*v*) decline, dip, droop, fall, set, descend, drop, fell, bury, collapse, decay, flag, founder; *antonyms* (*v*) rise, float.
- **TORIUTH** sink; *synonyms* (*n*) sag, basin, (*v*) decline, dip, droop, fall, set, descend, drop, fell, bury, collapse, decay, flag, founder; *antonyms* (*v*) rise, float.
- **ΤΟΠΟΓΡΑΦ** Surveyor; *synonyms* (*n*) inspector, assessor, visitor, engineer, husband, ranger, supercargo, auditor, traveler, voyager.
- **τορба 1**. bag; *synonyms* (n) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (ν) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net, **2**. wallet; *synonyms* (n) bag, billfold, notecase, pocketbook, satchel.
- **торбина** bag; *synonyms* (*n*) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (*v*) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net.
- торгівля 1. commerce; synonyms (n) business, exchange, connection, dealings, intercourse, association, barter, communication, conversation, traffic, interchange, (v) trade, affair, 2. trade; synonyms (n) deal, commerce, swap, switch, clientele, craft, employment, occupation, profession, calling, custom, (v) change, merchandise, bargain, sell; antonyms (n) purchase, (adj) charitable, 3. market; synonyms (n) fair, shop, bazaar, marketplace, mart, outlet, store, grocery, (v) demand, commercialize, handle, sale, 4. trading; synonyms (adj) commercial, mercantile, corrupt, jobbing, venal, (n) disposal, distribution, negotiation, patronage, 5. marketing; synonyms (n) merchandising, selling, advertising, campaign, nundination, promotion, publicity, staging, supplies, **6**. traffic; *synonyms* (n) dealing, travel, industry, (v) truck.
- **торговельний** trading; *synonyms* (*adj*) commercial, mercantile, corrupt, jobbing, venal, (*n*) business, disposal, distribution, negotiation, patronage.
- **торговець 1**. vendor; *synonyms* (*n*) seller, dealer, vender, merchant, trafficker, supplier; *antonym* (*n*) buyer, **2**. seller; *synonyms* (*n*) vendor, trader; *antonym*

- (n) purchaser, 3. merchant; synonyms (n) merchandiser, retailer, shopkeeper, storekeeper, broker, wholesaler, (v) chapman, 4. dealer; synonyms (n) monger, marketer, agent, salesperson, bargainer; antonym (n) user.
- торговий 1. commercial; synonyms (adj) business, mercantile, merchant, mercenary, profitable, economic, industrial, (n) advertisement, ad, publicity, announcement; antonyms (adj) charitable, noncommercial, 2. trade; synonyms (n) deal, barter, commerce, swap, switch, clientele, craft, employment, interchange, occupation, profession, (v) change, exchange, merchandise, bargain; antonym (n) purchase.
- торгувати 1. trade; *synonyms* (*n*) deal, business, barter, commerce, swap, switch, clientele, craft, employment, interchange, occupation, (*v*) change, exchange, merchandise, bargain; *antonyms* (*n*) purchase, (*adj*) charitable, 2. market; *synonyms* (*n*) fair, shop, bazaar, marketplace, trade, mart, outlet, store, grocery, (*v*) demand, sell, commercialize, handle, sale, traffic.
- **торгуватися** bargain; *synonyms* (*n*) contract, agreement, covenant, deal, treaty, arrangement, buy, chaffer, compact, promise, purchase, steal, (*v*) exchange, agree, (*adj*) cheap; *antonym* (*n*) rip-off.
- **торкати** touch; *synonyms* (n) feel, tinge, feeling, hint, (v) affect, contact, hit, border, adjoin, strike, stroke, regard, brush, concern, handle.
- **ΤΟΡΚΑΤΙΙCЯ** touch; *synonyms* (n) feel, tinge, feeling, hint, (v) affect, contact, hit, border, adjoin, strike, stroke, regard, brush, concern, handle.
- **TOPT 1.** cake; *synonyms* (n) bar, block, pastry, lump, pie, (v) harden, set, (adj) clot, fix, **2.** pie; *synonyms* (n) pi, puff, desert, dividend, picnic, pushover, snap, candy, tartlet, (v) volauvent, (adj) feasible.
- **тортури** torture; *synonyms* (*n*) torment, distress, pain, agony, anguish, suffering, excruciation, grief, misery, (*v*) rack, afflict, agonize, excruciate, persecute, martyr.
- торф peat; synonyms (n) turf, bog, pet.
- **TOCT** toast; *synonyms* (*n*) pledge, brown, plight, (*v*) drink, roast, burn, bake, wassail, cook, crisp, heat, inflame, salute
- **тотальний** total; *synonyms* (*adj*) aggregate, complete, all, absolute, entire, gross, downright, general, (*n*) whole, amount, sum, tally, entirety, (*v*) count, number; *antonyms* (*adj*) partial, incomplete, qualified.
- **ТОТОЖНИЙ** identical; *synonyms* (*adj*) equal, corresponding, uniform, consistent, alike, equivalent, selfsame, similar, very, synonymous, congruent, duplicate, even, exact, (*v*) same; *antonyms* (*adj*) different, incompatible, inconsistent.
- **ΤΟΤΟЖΗΙСΤЬ** identity; *synonyms* (n) identicalness, unity, individuality, personality, sameness, character, equality, person, similarity, equivalence.
- **ТОЧИЛО** steel (СТАЛЬ); *synonyms* (n) harden, blade, brand, brace, foil, fortify, sword, invigorate, strengthen, (adj) iron, adamant, (v) nerve, temper, gird.
- точка 1. point; *synonyms* (n) place, grade, peak, nib, edge, aim, article, degree, dot, mark, spot, phase, (v) head, direct, level, 2. dot; *synonyms* (n) point, speck,

- dash, splash, atom, bead, drop, mote, stain, fleck, (v) sprinkle, disperse, splotch, dotation, (adj) iota.
- **точки** points; *synonyms* (n) score, commendation, credit, handicap, interest, percentage, share, terms.
- точний 1. exact; synonyms (adj) detailed, precise, actual, authentic, careful, definite, direct, (v) accurate, close, demand, require, claim, command, ask, (n) correct; antonyms (adj) inaccurate, imprecise, vague, wrong, approximate, inexact, 2. accurate; synonyms (adj) exact, faithful, true, literal, meticulous, nice, right, strict, truthful, scientific, delicate, express, faultless, genuine, honest; antonym (adj) false, 3. precise; synonyms (adj) minute, certain, neat, particular, ceremonious, clear, distinct, fastidious, formal, punctilious, specific, methodical, fixed, explicit, fine; antonym (adj) rough, 4. strict; synonyms (adj) rigid, severe, stern, austere, harsh, rigorous, scrupulous, exacting, hard, inflexible, stiff, cruel, grim, perfect, relentless; antonyms (adj) lenient, free, lax, flexible, negligent, relaxed, 5. correct (виправляти); synonyms (adi) appropriate, becoming, proper, apt, befitting, (v) adjust, amend, castigate, chastise, chasten, better, remedy, straighten, atone, check; antonyms (adj) incorrect, faulty, inappropriate, mistaken, improper, (v) spoil, 6. explicit; synonyms (adj) unmistakable, broad, lucid, manifest, sharp, perspicuous, emphatic, transparent, obvious, plain, clearcut, flat, trenchant, comprehensible, decided; antonyms (adj) tacit, understood, unspoken, implicit, bland, 7. definite; synonyms (adj) absolute, categorical, conclusive, concrete, decisive, reliable, assured, defined, positive, pronounced, sure, confident, special, undeniable, (v) determinate; antonyms (adj) uncertain, unclear, doubtful, undefined, indeterminate, evasive, indefinite, indescribable, qualified, 8. careful; synonyms (adj) attentive, thrifty, alert, deliberate, economical, frugal, mindful, prudent, thoughtful, assiduous, aware, cagey, cautious, chary, (v) anxious; antonyms (adj) careless, reckless, slapdash, neglectful, 9. square; synonyms (adj) even, rectangular, fair, quadrate, straight, equal, equitable, (n) area, foursquare, rectangle, quadrilateral, (v) settle, agree, correspond, (adv) just, 10. specific; synonyms (adj) individual, peculiar, especial, single, characteristic, personal, separate, unique, set, different, exceptional, several, singular, unambiguous, (n) detail; antonyms (adj) universal, (n) general, 11. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, good, kind, lovely, likable, delicious, agreeable, decent, difficult, enjoyable, elegant, suitable, discriminating, curious; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible, 12. positive; synonyms (adj) affirmative, favorable, incontrovertible, peremptory, plus, advantageous, arbitrary, constructive, indisputable, total, dogmatic, assertive, incontestable, cocksure, convinced; antonyms (adj) negative, derogatory, unsure, pessimistic, sad, 13. perfect; synonyms (adj) consummate, complete, utter, entire, thorough, exquisite, integral, blameless, clean, flawless, (v) achieve, accomplish, finish, fulfill, (n) full; antonyms (adj) imperfect, flawed, 14. rigorous; synonyms (adj) brutal, stringent, biting, demanding, grave, inclement, ruthless, arduous, narrow, firm, rugged, bitter, laborious, intense, keen; antonym

- (adj) easy, **15**. true; synonyms (adj) real, sincere, factual, loyal, veritable, rightful, substantial, sound, lawful, legitimate, level, pure, upright, valid, (ν) square; antonyms (adj) bogus, untrue.
- точність 1. accuracy; synonyms (n) fidelity, precision, truth, exactitude, exactness, reliability, care, closeness, correctness, faithfulness, meticulousness, veracity; antonyms (n) inaccuracy, vagueness, imprecision, 2. precision; synonyms (n) accuracy, accurateness, preciseness, definiteness, delicacy, nicety, clarity, attention, carefulness, neatness, strictness, clearness, perfection, (adj) precise; antonym (n) ambiguity.
- точно 1. exactly; synonyms (adv) precisely, correctly, right, truly, sharp, absolutely, just, accurately, certainly, closely, completely, directly, punctually, rightly, barely; antonyms (adv) approximately, inaccurately, (prep) about, 2. precisely; synonyms (adv) exactly, literally, meticulously, strictly, only, clearly, expressly, carefully, justly, faithfully, quite, specifically, delicately, (adj) even, really; antonyms (adv) clumsily, indistinctly, vaguely, 3, accurately; antonym (adv) falsely, 4, fair: synonyms (adj) equitable, clear, beautiful, average, dispassionate, fine, impartial, reasonable, sweet, candid, (adv) clean, (n) bazaar, blonde, carnival, (v) bright; antonyms (adj) unfair, biased, dark, exceptional, unjust, partial, foul, imbalanced, mismatched, prejudiced, unwarranted, 5. true; synonyms (adj) real, actual, faithful, accurate, authentic, correct, exact, honest, straight, truthful, direct, sincere, factual, (v) square, (n) genuine; antonyms (adj) false, bogus, inaccurate, untrue, 6. just; synonyms (adv) hardly, newly, simply, exclusively, (adj) fair, fit, good, righteous, upright, appropriate, definite, due, ethical, evenhanded, honorable; antonym (adj) wrong.
- **TpaBa** grass; *synonyms* (*n*) cannabis, forage, marijuana, pasture, dope, feed, ganja, herb, herbage, informer, (*v*) betray, denounce, (*adj*) pot, green, hemp.
- **Травень** may; *synonyms* (v) can, could, get, might, acquire, aim, amaze, arrest, arrive, baffle, beat, become, beget, begin, bewilder.
- **TPaBMa** trauma; *synonyms* (*n*) injury, hurt, wound, shock, harm, strain, stress, concussion, damage, anxiety, crisis, detriment, distress, impairment, pressure.
- **трагедійний** tragic; *synonyms* (*adj*) sad, calamitous, disastrous, dreadful, grievous, catastrophic, unlucky, tragical, unfortunate, woeful, comic, heartbreaking, histrionic, scenic; *antonyms* (*adj*) amusing, humorous.
- трагедія tragedy; *synonyms* (*n*) catastrophe, calamity, disaster, misfortune, play, cataclysm, drama, bale; *antonym* (*n*) humor.
- **трагічний** tragic; *synonyms* (*adj*) sad, calamitous, disastrous, dreadful, grievous, catastrophic, unlucky, tragical, unfortunate, woeful, comic, heartbreaking, histrionic, scenic; *antonyms* (*adj*) amusing, humorous.
- традиційний traditional; synonyms (adj) orthodox, conventional, customary, conservative, normal, immemorial, ordinary, classic, habitual, legendary, traditionary, usual, accepted, accustomed, established; antonyms (adj) new, modern, progressive, unconventional, unusual.

- традиція tradition; *synonyms* (n) convention, custom, habit, practice, legend, folklore, heritage, lore, routine, myth.
- TPACKTOPIЯ path; *synonyms* (n) course, direction, way, highway, line, orbit, track, lane, means, alley, avenue, corridor, itinerary, route, (v) passage.
- **TPAKT** tract; *synonyms* (n) area, essay, expanse, pamphlet, region, dissertation, district, extent, section, lot, plot, domain, land, province, belt.
- **трактир** pub; *synonyms* (*n*) bar, pothouse, barroom, inn, saloon, taphouse, ginmill, lounge, drinkery, gashouse.
- **трактирник** host; *synonyms* (*n*) crowd, army, flock, horde, mob, legion, troop, emcee, mass, multitude, swarm, throng, heap, array, battalion.
- **TPAKTOP** tractor; *synonyms* (n) backhoe, grader, steamroller.
- **Трактування** treatment; *synonyms* (n) cure, conduct, handling, management, manipulation, therapy, medication, remedy, reception, attention, medicine, method, usage, (v) behavior, treat.
- трактувати handle; *synonyms* (*v*) administer, conduct, feel, wield, control, deal, direct, finger, manage, manipulate, touch, treat, (*n*) grip, clutch, grasp.
- **Транзит** transit; *synonyms* (n) journey, passage, conveyance, travel, movement, transfer, transport, transportation, theodolite.
- **транскрипція** transcription; *synonyms* (*n*) transcript, recording, copy, arrangement, record, reproduction, action, agreement, arranging, imitation, notes, organisation, organization, placement, preparation.
- трансляція 1. broadcasting; synonyms (n) dissemination, advertising, announcement, distribution, publication, publicity, revelation, 2. translation; synonyms (n) displacement, interpretation, rendering, transformation, version, rendition, paraphrase, metamorphosis, conversion, shift, adaptation, alteration, consecration, construction, (v) transmission.
- **TPaHCMICI9** transmission; *synonyms* (*n*) circulation, conveyance, contagion, transfer, broadcast, communication, drive, infection, spread, transmittal, transmittance, dissemination, passage, transmitting.
- транспорт 1. transport; synonyms (n) rapture, (v) transfer, transmit, bear, carry, delight, enrapture, exile, banish, convey, enchant, ferry, ravish, send, take; antonyms (v) disenchant, remain, 2, transportation: synonyms (n) deportation, banishment, carriage, freight. shipping, transit, traffic, transference, ecstasy, transferral, (v) transport, conveyance, transmission, 3. traffic; synonyms (n) dealings, commerce, business, dealing, interchange, intercourse, travel, (v) exchange, trade, deal, barter, bargain, truck, custom, employment, 4. carriage; synonyms (n) attitude, behavior, air, coach, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, walk, carrying, (v) bearing, 5. convoy; synonyms (n) guard, column, fleet, procession, safeguard, train, (v) accompany, conduct, guide, attend, bring, lead, (adj) escort.
- **транспортний** transport; *synonyms* (n) rapture, (v) transfer, transmit, bear, carry, delight, enrapture, exile,

- banish, convey, enchant, ferry, ravish, send, take; *antonyms* (*v*) disenchant, remain.
- транспортування 1. carriage; *synonyms* (*n*) attitude, transport, behavior, conveyance, air, coach, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, (*v*) bearing, 2. transportation; *synonyms* (*n*) deportation, banishment, exile, carriage, freight, shipping, transfer, transit, traffic, transference, ecstasy, rapture, transferral, (*v*) transmission.
- **ΤΡΑΗ CHOPTYBATH 1**. transport; *synonyms* (*n*) rapture, (*v*) transfer, transmit, bear, carry, delight, enrapture, exile, banish, convey, enchant, ferry, ravish, send, take; *antonyms* (*v*) disenchant, remain, **2**. convey; *synonyms* (*v*) communicate, bring, channel, conduct, express, fetch, impart, transport, mean, cause, cede, consign, deliver, grant, pass.
- **ΤΡΑΗ COPPMALIS** transformation; *synonyms* (n) conversion, alteration, metamorphosis, change, shift, mutation, metabolism, modification, translation, transmutation, improvement, rectification, transmogrification, version.
- **трансформувати** transform; *synonyms* (*v*) change, alter, convert, metamorphose, modify, translate, turn, become, transfigure, transmute, process, vary, reform, transmogrify, adapt.
- **ΤΡΑΠ** Stairs; synonyms (n) stair, staircase, stairway, steps. траплятися 1. happen; synonyms (v) arise, befall, chance, come, develop, fall, go, appear, bechance, get, hap, occur, pass, transpire, (n) betide, 2. occur; synonyms (v) happen, be, materialize, arrive, ensue, proceed, break, advance, begin, exist, rise, eventuate, continue, elapse, issue, 3. be; synonyms (v) live, act, consist, constitute, represent, cost, follow, form, lie, remain, rest, stay, subsist, comprise, (n) stand, 4. come (приходити); synonyms (v) approach, become, aggregate, amount, descend, hail, number, originate, reach, spring, total, accrue, climax, derive, do; antonym (v) leave, 5. offer; synonyms (v) give, bestow, put, extend, impart, introduce, perform, propose, tender, lay, dedicate, contribute, (n) bid, proposal, proposition; antonyms (v) withdraw, refuse.
- тратити spend; *synonyms* (*v*) consume, exhaust, expend, squander, blow, deplete, pass, wear, lead, invest, dissipate, draw, drop, employ, (*adj*) waste; *antonyms* (*v*) save, conserve.
- ΤΡΕΚ track; synonyms (n) course, path, line, racetrack, road, route, (v) trace, trail, hunt, tail, chase, pursue, dog, follow, footprint.
- тремтіння trembling; *synonyms* (*adj*) shaking, shaky, quaking, shivering, flutter, tremulous, trepidation, doddering, (*n*) quivering, tremor, palpitation, quiver, vibration, shiver, quake; *antonym* (*adj*) composed.
- **TPEMTITU** shake; *synonyms* (*v*) beat, agitate, jar, brandish, disturb, excite, flutter, totter, wag, (*n*) tremble, jolt, quiver, wave, trembling, (*adi*) quake.
- **тремтячий** trembling; *synonyms* (*adj*) shaking, shaky, quaking, shivering, flutter, tremulous, trepidation, doddering, (*n*) quivering, tremor, palpitation, quiver, vibration, shiver, quake; *antonym* (*adj*) composed.
- **TPEHEP 1**. coach; *synonyms* (n) trainer, tutor, instructor, teacher, autobus, bus, carriage, charabanc, stagecoach,

- cart, (v) train, educate, groom, instruct, (adj) prime, 2. trainer; synonyms (n) coach, mentor, professor, cavalier, don, equestrian, horseman, jockey, rider, roughrider, (v) preparer.
- тренування training; *synonyms* (n) education, instruction, breeding, practice, preparation, teaching, exercise, discipline, nurture, drill, schooling, experience, workout, culture, coaching.
- тренувати 1. coach; synonyms (n) trainer, tutor, instructor, teacher, autobus, bus, carriage, charabanc, stagecoach, cart, (v) train, educate, groom, instruct, (adj) prime, 2. drill; synonyms (n) exercise, discipline, practice, auger, borer, rehearsal, gimlet, preparation, (v) bore, coach, inculcate, perforate, pierce, tap, habituate, 3. train; synonyms (n) chain, string, form, caravan, (v) aim, direct, trail, tail, tame, drill, prepare, school, domesticate, drag, rear, 4. practise; synonyms (v) apply, do, execute, perform, rehearse, act, exert, answer, arrange, behave, cause, coif, coiffe, coiffure, come.
- **тренуватися** practise; *synonyms* (*v*) apply, do, drill, execute, exercise, perform, practice, rehearse, act, exert, answer, arrange, behave, bore, cause.
- **TPECT** trust; *synonyms* (*n*) charge, confidence, credit, faith, reliance, rely, assurance, belief, cartel, responsibility, dependence, care, (*v*) believe, hope, confide; *antonyms* (*v*) distrust, doubt, disbelieve, mistrust.
- **TPETUHA** third; *synonyms* (n) second, three, inquiry, leash, probe, question, terce, tercet, ternary, ternion, (adj) tertiary, least, tertial, (adv) thirdly, (v) interrogate.
- τρετiй third; synonyms (n) second, three, inquiry, leash, probe, question, terce, tercet, ternary, ternion, (adj) tertiary, least, tertial, (adv) thirdly, (ν) interrogate.
- **три** three; *synonyms* (*n*) leash, triplet, tercet, ternary, ternion, terzetto, third, lead, terce, tether, threesome, tierce, trey, triad, trine.
- **трибуна** platform; *synonyms* (*n*) dais, floor, rostrum, stage, stand, plan, pulpit, ambo, arena, dock, base, pedestal, platforms, amphitheater, (*v*) program.
- **трибуна**л tribunal; *synonyms* (*n*) court, judicature, judicatory, trial, bar.
- тривалий 1. long; synonyms (adj) extended, lengthy, dragging, far, (v) aspire, desire, hanker, languish, yearn, ache, hunger, wish, crave, (n) extensive, large; antonyms (adj) short, brief, 2. extended; synonyms (adj) broad, expanded, ample, long, wide, elongated, enlarged, lengthened, prolonged, protracted, open, comprehensive, continued, outstretched, spacious; antonyms (adj) condensed, unextended.
- тривалість 1. duration; synonyms (n) length, continuation, continuance, period, standing, stretch, time, distance, age, permanency, span, continuity, endurance, course, space, 2. currency; synonyms (n) cash, money, coin, circulation, vogue, dollar, currentness, publicity, 3. standing; synonyms (v) stand, post, (n) rank, fame, importance, position, prestige, place, reputation, footing, attitude, class, (adj) erect, motionless, permanent, 4. length (ДОВЖИНА); synonyms (n) extent, range, duration, compass, depth, dimension, longness, measurement, size, quantity, degree, breadth, (v) expanse, tract, area; antonyms (n) briefness, shortness, width.

- **Тривати 1**. last; *synonyms* (*v*) endure, continue, hold, exist, live, dwell, (*n*) abide, conclusion, (*adj*) extreme, closing, final, ultimate, conclusive, concluding, farthest; *antonyms* (*n*) opening, (*adj*) first, **2**. continue; *synonyms* (*v*) remain, keep, persevere, sustain, bide, be, extend, last, maintain, persist, preserve, proceed, resume, stand, (*adj*) prolong; *antonyms* (*v*) stop, end, cease, discontinue.
- тривіальний trivial; *synonyms* (*adj*) insignificant, frivolous, little, small, trifling, commonplace, inconsiderable, paltry, petty, piddling, slight, superficial, trite, hackneyed, banal; *antonyms* (*adj*) important, significant, vital, major, profound, urgent.
- тривога 1. anxiety; synonyms (n) alarm, care, disquiet, fear, solicitude, trouble, anguish, anxiousness, concern, uneasiness, worry, worriment, pain, agitation, burden; antonyms (n) calmness, bravery, calm, confidence, 2. alarm; synonyms (n) dismay, alert, consternation, affright, apprehension, fright, terror, unrest, warning, (v) awe, scare, agitate, horrify, panic, startle; antonym (v) comfort, 3. worry; synonyms (v) torment, bother, distress, tease, annoy, disturb, molest, vex, fret, (n) harass, fuss, annoyance, sorrow, anxiety, (adj) irritate; antonyms (v) soothe, reassure, (n) reassurance, 4. alert; synonyms (adj) active, agile, quick, aware, intelligent, lively, vigilant, clever, alive, animated, attentive, bright, brisk, (v) awake, (n) alarum; antonyms (adj) drowsy, inattentive, absentminded, dazed, sleepy, tired, asleep, slow, unalert, unconscious.
- тривожний 1. anxious; synonyms (adj) afraid, alarmed, nervous, tense, uneasy, agitated, apprehensive, concerned, distressed, fearful, frightened, keen, thoughtful, (v) jumpy, solicitous; antonyms (adj) calm, relaxed, carefree, confident, rational, unconcerned, undisturbed, untroubled, 2. uncomfortable; synonyms (adj) awkward, embarrassing, troubled, inconvenient, difficult, discomfited, anxious, cheerless, embarrassed, painful, (v) untoward; antonyms (adj) fidgety, unquiet, fretful, impatient, restive, feverish, turbulent, disturbed, edgy, wakeful, eager, hasty, mercurial, hectic, (n) tremulous.
- **тридцять** thirty; *synonyms* (n) xxx, termination, dash, (adj) thretty.
- **Трикутник** triangle; *synonyms* (*n*) trigon, trilateral, reed, trident, triennium, trionym, triplopia, tripod, trireme, triseme, triskele, triskelion, trisula, wheel, xylophone.
- **ΤΡΗΜΑΤΗ 1.** keep; *synonyms* (*v*) hold, preserve, retain, defend, continue, guard, have, maintain, celebrate, confine, conserve, observe, reserve, save, commemorate; *antonyms* (*v*) dump, lose, **2.** hold; *synonyms* (*v*) keep, detain, endure, adhere, bear, comprise, contain, entertain, arrest, carry, delay, (*n*) grasp, grip, clasp, clutch; *antonym* (*v*) release.
- **ТРИМАТИСЯ** bear (Ведмідь); *synonyms* (*v*) carry, accept, abide, acquit, stand, take, afford, allow, apply, assume, behave, brook, comport, conduct, convey.
- трійка three; synonyms (n) leash, triplet, tercet, ternary, ternion, terzetto, third, lead, terce, tether, threesome, tierce, trey, triad, trine.

- **Tpio** trio; *synonyms* (*n*) triad, threesome, triplet, three, trey, ternary, trine, trinity, leash, ternion, (*adv*) duet, duo, solo.
- **тріпотливий** trembling; *synonyms* (*adj*) shaking, shaky, quaking, shivering, flutter, tremulous, trepidation, doddering, (*n*) quivering, tremor, palpitation, quiver, vibration, shiver, quake; *antonym* (*adj*) composed.
- **ΤΡΙCK 1.** Crack; *synonyms* (n) break, fracture, cleft, fissure, chip, (v) chink, crevice, split, breach, burst, snap, clap, bang, check, cleave; *antonyms* (v) repair, mend, **2**. crash; *synonyms* (n) clash, collision, smash, clank, clatter, fall, impact, slam, (v) collapse, clang, crack, dash, plunge, ram, thunder.
- TPICKATHCH Crack; synonyms (n) break, fracture, cleft, fissure, chip, (v) chink, crevice, split, breach, burst, snap, clap, bang, check, cleave; antonyms (v) repair, mend.
- **Tpiymφ** triumph; *synonyms* (n) glory, conquest, exultation, victory, success, achievement, (ν) exult, prevail, crow, joy, rejoice, win, succeed, gloat, conquer; *antonyms* (n) failure, defeat, sorrow, (ν) fail, lose.
- тріщати crack; *synonyms* (n) break, fracture, cleft, fissure, chip, (v) chink, crevice, split, breach, burst, snap, clap, bang, check, cleave; *antonyms* (v) repair, mend.
- тріщина 1. chap; synonyms (n) fellow, person, blighter, crack, cranny, crevice, guy, lad, man, beau, scissure, chink, cleft, cuss, fella; antonym (n) woman, 2. crack; synonyms (n) break, fracture, fissure, chip, (v) split, breach, burst, snap, clap, bang, check, cleave, rift, rupture, smash; antonyms (v) repair, mend, 3. break; synonyms (v) fail, infringe, leak, tear, undo, beat, bust, (n) pause, stop, collapse, interruption, respite, suspension, breakage, chance; antonyms (v) obey, honor, (n) continuation, 4. nick; synonyms (n) notch, mark, cut, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (v) dent, steal, hack, indent, slash.
- **тролейбус** trolley; *synonyms* (n) streetcar, tram, tramcar, tramway, catch, repetition, ropeway, (v) airplane, autobus, automobile, bus, minivan, motorbike, omnibus, plane.
- **TPOH** throne; *synonyms* (*n*) seat, can, stool, place, chair, commode, crapper, lavatory, pot, potty, (*v*) enthrone.
- **тропічний** tropical; *synonyms* (*adj*) tropic, torrid, hot, figurative, sunny, balmy, boiling, metaphorical, rank, translative, tropological, close, humid, lush, sticky; *antonym* (*adj*) freezing.
- **тротуар 1**. pavement; *synonyms* (n) footpath, paving, walk, path, pathway, sidewalk, ground, trottoir, **2**. walk (ходити); *synonyms* (v) ramble, course, hike, move, roam, travel, trek, go, (n) step, gait, pace, saunter, stroll, excursion, pass.
- **трофей 1.** trophy; *synonyms* (n) award, prize, monument, hatchment, slab, tablet, **2.** prize; *synonyms* (n) plunder, treasure, booty, premium, loot, price, trophy, (v) appreciate, esteem, cherish, honor, value, admire, pry, (adj) choice.
- **TPOXH** little; *synonyms* (*adj*) small, diminutive, insignificant, brief, minute, petty, short, some, tiny, exiguous, light, baby, bantam, (*v*) dash, bit; *antonyms* (*adj*) big, enormous, large, important.

- **троянда** rose; *synonyms* (v) flush, redden, glow, (n) rosette, red, (*adj*) pink, rosaceous, roseate, anemone, asphodel, begonia, buttercup, daffodil, geranium, lily.
- **трояндовий** rose; *synonyms* (*v*) flush, redden, glow, (*n*) rosette, red, (*adj*) pink, rosaceous, roseate, anemone, asphodel, begonia, buttercup, daffodil, geranium, lily.
- **Tpy6a 1.** pipe; synonyms (n) tube, conduit, channel, duct, flue, hose, passage, pipage, (v) cry, peep, screech, shriek, sing, squeak, creak, **2.** tube; synonyms (n) pipe, subway, cylinder, metro, hosepipe, television, box, piping, bulb, shaft, roll, tubing, underground, **3.** trunk; synonyms (n) stem, boot, torso, body, bole, proboscis, snout, stalk, stock, case, house, luggage, nose, stirps.
- **ΤΡΥΘΚά** tube; *synonyms* (n) pipe, conduit, duct, subway, hose, channel, cylinder, metro, hosepipe, television, box, piping, bulb, shaft, roll.
- **трубопровід** ріре; *synonyms* (*n*) tube, conduit, channel, duct, flue, hose, passage, pipage, (*v*) cry, peep, screech, shriek, sing, squeak, creak.
- труд 1. work (робота); *synonyms* (*n*) exercise, business, employment, function, task, action, act, book, composition, (*v*) labor, operate, toil, cultivate, (*adj*) job, trade; *antonyms* (*v*) idle, malfunction, **2.** labour; *synonyms* (*n*) effort, exertion, childbed, confinement, proletariat, (*v*) grind, travail, drive, drudge, fag, fatigue, moil, push, tug, dig, **3.** job; *synonyms* (*n*) chore, position, work, assignment, career, duty, matter, occupation, post, concern, line, mission, office, profession, stint.
- трудний 1. difficult; synonyms (adj) arduous, awkward, demanding, burdensome, complicated, delicate, fastidious, hard, knotty, uphill, finicky, abstruse, ambitious, cantankerous, complex; antonyms (adj) easy, simple, straightforward, good-natured, rewarding, clear, 2. hard; synonyms (adj) austere, bad, difficult, grave, severe, strong, callous, cruel, grueling, tough, bitter, alcoholic, (adv) firm, (v) acute, (n) rough; antonyms (adj) soft, kind, merciful, soggy, tender, yielding, (adv) gently, lightly.
- трудність difficulty; synonyms (n) hindrance, impediment, trouble, bother, asperity, jam, barrier, difficultness, fix, hardship, inconvenience, obstacle, strait, adversity, disadvantage; antonyms (n) ease, simplicity, advantage, help.
- трудноші 1. embarrassment; synonyms (n) confusion, difficulty, dilemma, discomfiture, quandary, bewilderment, humiliation, mortification, shame, uneasiness, chagrin, anxiety, (v) distress, embarrass, (adj) perplexity, 2. hardship; synonyms (n) adversity, calamity, affliction, grievance, trouble, burden, disaster, asperity, deprivation, destitution, misfortune, poverty, suffering, trial, catastrophe; antonym (n) affluence, 3. difficulty; synonyms (n) hindrance, impediment, bother, jam, barrier, difficultness, fix, hardship, inconvenience, obstacle, strait, disadvantage, ado, knot, complexity; antonyms (n) ease, simplicity, advantage, beln
- **труна** coffin; *synonyms* (n) casket, chest, cask, hearse, urn, automobile, basket, contention, controversy, crate, strife, tomb, (ν) bury.

- труп 1. corpse; *synonyms* (*n*) cadaver, carcass, body, corse, remains, stiff, clay, **2**. body (тіло); *synonyms* (*n*) corpse, matter, organization, cluster, consistency, figure, mass, set, aggregate, association, entity, amount, bulk, company, corps; *antonym* (*n*) spirit.
- **TPycu** shorts; *synonyms* (*n*) pants, knickers, drawers, trunks, underwear, bloomers, boxers, underdrawers.
- **трюк** trick; *synonyms* (*n*) deceit, deception, joke, prank, device, dupe, stratagem, (*v*) swindle, cheat, deceive, fraud, sham, con, mislead, beguile.
- **Трясти 1.** shake; *synonyms* (*v*) beat, agitate, jar, brandish, disturb, excite, flutter, totter, wag, (*n*) tremble, jolt, quiver, wave, trembling, (*adj*) quake, **2.** rock; *synonyms* (*n*) boulder, calculus, pillar, (*v*) sway, cradle, shake, toss, waver, pitch, reel, roll, swing, wobble, (*adj*) pebble, stone, **3.** jar; *synonyms* (*n*) jangle, blow, crock, container, jog, amphora, bottle, crash, pot, (*v*) clash, creak, bump, collide, jounce, grate.
- TYAJET 1. lavatory; synonyms (n) bathroom, can, toilet, commode, lav, bath, basin, privy, washbasin, washstand, crapper, 2. toilet; synonyms (n) lavatory, attire, dress, stool, costume, guise, raiment, drapery, pot, potty, throne.
- **туалетний** toilet; *synonyms* (n) bathroom, lavatory, attire, can, dress, lav, privy, stool, costume, bath, guise, raiment, commode, crapper, drapery.
- **тубільний** indigenous; *synonyms* (*adj*) aboriginal, autochthonous, native, domestic, endemic, vernacular, congenital, inherent, innate, autochthonal, autochthonic.
- тугий 1. tight; synonyms (adj) close, compact, firm, mean, parsimonious, taut, secure, snug, tense, drunk, miserly, (v) narrow, fast, stingy, near; antonyms (adj) loose, baggy, generous, slack, wide, (adv) loosely, 2. stiff; synonyms (adj) rigid, hard, difficult, formal, inflexible, numb, rigorous, severe, solid, sturdy, arduous, (adv) tight, (n) stark, cadaver, corpse; antonyms (adj) relaxed, flexible, floppy, soft, supple, free, pliable.
- **туди** there; *synonyms* (*adv*) here, thither, present, thereat, apparent, convenient, visible, (*adj*) adept, competent, expert, professional, reliable, skillful, trustworthy, unfailing.
- **Ty3** ace; *synonyms* (n) expert, one, virtuoso, wizard, adept, master, star, (adj) crack, dot, iota, jot, outstanding, particle, point, super.
- тулуб 1. trunk; synonyms (n) stem, boot, torso, body, bole, proboscis, snout, stalk, box, stock, case, house, luggage, nose, stirps, 2. body (тіло); synonyms (n) cadaver, corpse, matter, organization, carcass, cluster, consistency, figure, mass, set, aggregate, association, entity, amount, bulk; antonym (n) spirit.
- **TYMAH 1.** fog; *synonyms* (*n*) cloud, haze, vapor, brume, confusion, daze, damp, smoke, (*v*) mist, confuse, blur, dim, becloud, befog, darken, **2**. mist; *synonyms* (*n*) fog, film, steam, rain, (*v*) cover, obscure, drizzle, bedim, hide, squirt.
- **ТУНЕЛЬ 1.** tunnel; *synonyms* (*n*) hole, funnel, chimney, ferry, flue, (*v*) burrow, dig, excavate, bore, gouge, (*adj*) mine, undermine, delve, dent, dint, **2**. tube; *synonyms* (*n*) pipe, conduit, duct, subway, hose, channel, cylinder, metro, hosepipe, television, box, piping, bulb, shaft, roll.

- тупий 1. dull; synonyms (adj) dim, blunt, dense, dreary, sluggish, bland, boring, cloudy, cold, dark, dismal, inactive, inert, (v) deaden, dampen; antonyms (adj) bright, lively, sharp, exciting, interesting, lustrous, stimulating, amusing, exhilarating, glittery, glossy, glowing, high-pitched, intense, luminous, 2. dense; synonyms (adj) compact, thick, close, crowded, deep, crass, dull, heavy, impenetrable, solid, stupid, concentrated, dumb, firm, gross; antonyms (adj) insightful, loose, clever, intelligent, readable, simple, sparse, 3. asleep; synonyms (adj) dead, deceased, dormant, numb, sleeping, sleepy, comatose, departed, gone, napping, slumbering, snoozing, lifeless, defunct, idle; antonyms (adj) awake, up.
- тупик 1. dock; synonyms (n) bob, berth, bobtail, harbor, pier, quay, sorrel, wharf, marina, dockage, (v) clip, cut, pare, curtail, deprive; antonym (v) undock, 2. blind; synonyms (adj) sightless, undiscerning, (v) bedazzle, daze, dazzle, obscure, (n) screen, curtain, shutter, awning, drape, trick, veil, camouflage, cheat; antonym (adj) sighted.
- **Typ** tour; *synonyms* (*n*) journey, excursion, circuit, round, jaunt, voyage, passage, go, pilgrimage, ramble, tramp, trip, (*v*) expedition, travel, ride.
- **Typa** castle; *synonyms* (n) rook, citadel, fortification, fortress, castling, fort, keep, mansion, palace, stronghold, tower, house, chateau, court, (v) donjon.
- **TVPGOTA 1.** WOTTY; synonyms (v) torment, trouble, bother, distress, tease, annoy, care, disturb, fear, molest, (n) concern, burden, harass, pain, fuss; antonyms (v) soothe, reassure, (n) calmness, reassurance, 2. care; synonyms (n) attention, caution, aid, apprehension, custody, keep, maintenance, worry, attendance, affection, attentiveness, guard, (v) anxiety, charge, administer; antonyms (n) carelessness, recklessness, rashness, thoughtlessness, (v) neglect, disregard, 3. bother; synonyms (v) vex, afflict, aggravate, irk, irritate, bedevil, badger, bait, (n) plague, bore, hassle, ado, annoyance, nuisance, aggravation; antonyms (v) delight, please, (n) pleasure, 4. anxiety (тривога); synonyms (n) alarm, disquiet, solicitude, anguish, anxiousness, uneasiness, worriment, agitation, dismay, misgiving, nervousness, panic, qualm, restlessness, scruple; antonyms (n) bravery, calm, confidence. 5. trouble: synonyms (n) difficulty. hardship, load, misfortune, problem, grief, disturbance. (v) inconvenience, disorder, agitate, distract, perturb, confuse, discommode, (adj) affliction, 6. concern; synonyms (n) business, affair, regard, matter, company, firm, part, (v) affect, interest, import, involve, pertain, relate, touch, apply; antonym (v) unconcern.
- турботливий 1. careful; synonyms (adj) accurate, attentive, thrifty, alert, deliberate, economical, frugal, mindful, prudent, thoughtful, assiduous, aware, cagey, cautious, (v) anxious; antonyms (adj) careless, reckless, slapdash, neglectful, 2. tender; synonyms (adj) affectionate, painful, loving, sensitive, soft, sore, compassionate, delicate, fond, gentle, mild, (v) proffer, (n) offer, bid, overture; antonyms (adj) tough, hard, hardhearted, rubbery, rough.
- **турбувати 1**. disturb; *synonyms* (*v*) agitate, disconcert, disorder, disquiet, distract, distress, perturb, trouble,

- annoy, bother, commove, concern, derange, disarrange, discompose; antonyms (v) arrange, calm, please, smooth, soothe, 2. Worry; synonyms (v) torment, tease, care, disturb, fear, molest, vex, (n) burden, harass, pain, fuss, annoyance, sorrow, anxiety, (adj) irritate; antonyms (v) reassure, (n) calmness, reassurance, 3. harry; synonyms (v) badger, plague, afflict, hassle, maraud, pester, devastate, beleaguer, beset, chevy, chivvy, ravage, gall, harrow, (adj) worry, 4. concern; synonyms (n) business, affair, regard, attention, matter, company, apprehension, firm, part, (v) affect, interest, import, involve, pertain, relate; antonym (v) unconcern, 5. trouble; synonyms (n) difficulty, hardship, load, misfortune, problem, grief, disturbance, nuisance, (v) inconvenience, confuse, discommode, incommode, upset, anguish, (adj) affliction.
- Typбуватися 1. care; synonyms (n) attention, bother, caution, concern, aid, apprehension, custody, keep, maintenance, worry, attendance, affection, (v) anxiety, charge, administer; antonyms (n) carelessness, recklessness, rashness, thoughtlessness, (v) neglect, disregard, 2. bother; synonyms (v) trouble, annoy, torment, vex, afflict, aggravate, harass, irk, (n) fuss, plague, bore, hassle, pain, ado, annoyance; antonyms (v) delight, please, soothe, (n) pleasure, 3. trouble; synonyms (n) distress, difficulty, care, hardship, load, misfortune, (v) inconvenience, disorder, disquiet, agitate, burden, distract, disturb, perturb, (adj) affliction; antonym (v) calm.
- **турбулентний** turbulent; *synonyms* (*adj*) tempestuous, tumultuous, rough, furious, boisterous, disorderly, noisy, riotous, violent, wild, rude, troubled, unruly, agitated, (*n*) stormy; *antonym* (*adj*) calm.
- **Туреччина** turkey (індик); *synonyms* (*n*) dud, failure, bomb, flop, joker, butt, coward, fiasco, fool, jokester, loser, luggage, misfire, (*adj*) imperfect, incapable.
- туризм tourism; synonym (n) touristry.
- **TyphcT** tourist; *synonyms* (*n*) traveler, holidaymaker, hiker, visitor, adventurer, explorer, vacationer, passenger, voyager, arrival, caller, guest, phaeton, rambler, tourer.
- **TyphikeT** wicket; *synonyms* (*n*) gate, lattice, grille, hoop, ostiary, porch, portal, postern, grill, basket, fretwork, grillwork, latticework, ring.
- **Typhip** tournament; *synonyms* (n) tilt, competition, contest, tourney, (v) action, combat, engagement, joust.
- TyT 1. here; synonyms (adv) hither, in, about, arrived, available, indoors, inwards, (n) hair, (adj) present, there, near, nearby, (pron) her, their; antonym (adv) out, 2. there; synonyms (adv) here, thither, thereat, apparent, convenient, visible, around, (adj) adept, competent, expert, professional, reliable, skillful, trustworthy, unfailing.
- **туфля** shoe; *synonyms* (*n*) boot, horseshoe, skid, clog, splint, spoke, sprit, base, stilts, stirrup, galoshes.
- тьмяний 1. dim; synonyms (adj) dark, obscure, cloudy, dull, bleak, dense, faint, gloomy, (v) blur, darken, cloud, pale, tarnish, blear, blind; antonyms (adj) bright, brilliant, intelligent, clever, strong, (v) clear, brighten, 2. dull; synonyms (adj) dim, blunt, dreary, sluggish, bland, boring, cold, dismal, inactive, inert, obtuse, slack, slow,

- (v) deaden, dampen; antonyms (adj) lively, sharp, exciting, interesting, lustrous, stimulating, amusing, exhilarating, glittery, glossy, glowing, high-pitched, intense, luminous, shiny, 3. sad; synonyms (adj) distressing, miserable, mournful, pitiable, pitiful, bad, dejected, deplorable, depressed, depressing, disconsolate, doleful, dolorous, downcast, funereal; antonyms (adj) happy, cheerful, joyful, brave, cheery, composed.
- тьмяніти pale; *synonyms* (*adj*) ghastly, faint, wan, dull, light, pallid, weak, watery, cadaverous, (*v*) dim, blanch, (*n*) boundary, confine, border, bound; *antonyms* (*adj*) dark, rosy, strong, brown.
- **тьотя** aunt (тітка); *synonyms* (n) auntie, aunty, uncle, nephew, niece.
- **тюбик** tube; *synonyms* (*n*) pipe, conduit, duct, subway, hose, channel, cylinder, metro, hosepipe, television, box, piping, bulb, shaft, roll.
- **TIOK** parcel; *synonyms* (n) lot, bale, pack, bundle, division, package, packet, section, batch, plot, patch, allotment, (v) portion, distribute, apportion.
- **ТЮЛЕНЬ** seal; *synonyms* (*n*) mark, stamp, cachet, hallmark, imprint, impression, signet, (*v*) plug, bar, close, shut, stop, clinch, lock, (*adj*) conclude; *antonyms* (*v*) open, unseal.
- **тюрма** prison (в'язниця); *synonyms* (n) jail, calaboose, confinement, lockup, penitentiary, jug, confine, custody.
- **TIOTIOH** tobacco; *synonyms* (n) baccy, nicotian, (adj) nicotine.
- **тютюновий** tobacco; *synonyms* (n) baccy, nicotian, (adj) nicotine.
- THEA 1. pull; synonyms (v) drag, draw, draught, pluck, attract, haul, jerk, tug, pick, make, force, hale, (n) wrench, attraction, effort; antonyms (v) push, repel, 2. draw; synonyms (v) delineate, pull, depict, derive, describe, design, tie, bring, charm, lure, puff, get, outline, (n) allure, draft.
- TSIFAD 1. burden; synonyms (n) load, anxiety, pack, strain, bale, care, cargo, concern, core, (v) bother, weight, burthen, clog, trouble, afflict; antonyms (v) relieve, unburden, 2. weight; synonyms (n) burden, charge, consequence, heaviness, importance, pressure, significance, stress, ballast, bias, import, influence, moment, emphasis, (v) gravity; antonym (n) triviality, 3. load; synonyms (n) freight, stack, heap, consignment, lading, shipment, crowd, encumbrance, (v) fill, encumber, pile, lade, stow, glut, cram; antonym (v) unload.
- **ΤЯΓΗУΤИ 1.** draw; *synonyms* (ν) attract, drag, delineate, pull, depict, derive, describe, design, tie, bring, charm, haul, (n) allure, attraction, draft; *antonyms* (ν) push, repel, **2.** pull; *synonyms* (ν) draw, draught, pluck, jerk, tug, pick, make, force, hale, lure, strain, (n) wrench, effort, puff, twist.
- **THITH 1**. draw; *synonyms* (v) attract, drag, delineate, pull, depict, derive, describe, design, tie, bring, charm, haul, (n) allure, attraction, draft; *antonyms* (v) push, repel, **2**. pull; *synonyms* (v) draw, draught, pluck, jerk, tug, pick, make, force, hale, lure, strain, (n) wrench, effort, puff, twist.

- тяжіння attraction; synonyms (n) allure, enticement, invitation, affinity, allurement, appeal, charm, lure, attractiveness, bait, draw, fascination, inducement, magnetism, temptation; antonyms (n) repulsion, disgust, requision.
- тяжкий 1. difficult; synonyms (adj) arduous, awkward, demanding, burdensome, complicated, delicate, fastidious, hard, knotty, uphill, finicky, abstruse, ambitious, cantankerous, complex; antonyms (adj) easy, simple, straightforward, good-natured, rewarding, clear, 2. heavy; synonyms (adj) dull, deep, dark, dense, fat, full, grave, gross, bulky, grievous, oppressive, thick, compact, ample, cumbersome; antonyms (adj) light, slim, thin, slight, gentle, puny, skinny, 3. hard; synonyms (adj) austere, bad, difficult, severe, strong, callous, cruel, grueling, tough, bitter, alcoholic, backbreaking, (adv) firm, (v) acute, (n) rough; antonyms (adj) soft, kind, merciful, soggy, tender, yielding, (adv) gently, lightly, 4. trying; synonyms (adj) taxing, annoying, bothersome, rugged, thorny, tiresome, painful, troublesome, irritating, exhausting, exacting, exasperating, maddening, tedious, (n) testing, 5. painful; synonyms (adj) sore, afflictive, harrowing, sharp, aching, dolorous, excruciating, harsh, laborious, poignant, unpleasant, intolerable, galling, nasty, (v) distressing; antonyms (adj) painless, content.
- тяжкість weight; synonyms (n) load, burden, charge, consequence, heaviness, importance, pressure, significance, stress, ballast, bias, import, influence, moment, (v) gravity; antonym (n) triviality.
- тяжко heavily; synonyms (adv) hard, heavy, firmly, grievously, sadly, deeply, closely, thickly, densely, laboriously, substantially, tightly, compactly, droopily, freely.
- **ТЯМУЩИЙ 1**. smart; *synonyms* (*adj*) bright, crafty, dapper, quick, shrewd, sly, prompt, astute, chic, clever, intelligent, (v) ache, hurt, (n) pain, sharp; *antonyms* (*adj*) scruffy, stupid, dim, shabby, unkempt, slow, **2**. comprehensive; *synonyms* (*adj*) capacious, broad, extensive, inclusive, complete, detailed, exhaustive, full, large, overall, sweeping, thorough, total, universal, wide; *antonyms* (*adj*) narrow, partial, noncomprehensive, restricted.
- тямущість comprehension; *synonyms* (n) apprehension, conception, grasp, inclusion, intelligence, knowledge, understanding, wit, capacity, familiarity, acumen, appreciation, discernment, insight, notion; *antonyms* (n) misunderstanding, incomprehension.
- **ТЯТИВА** nerve; *synonyms* (*n*) audacity, cheek, impertinence, boldness, brass, courage, daring, face, fortitude, heart, impudence, mettle, prowess, assurance, backbone; *antonym* (*n*) cowardice.

## V

y 1. in; synonyms (prep) during, between, by, through, at, inside, (adv) indoors, inward, (n) inch, (adj) stylish, fashionable, inwards, trendy, within, modish; antonyms

- (prep) out, outside, **2**. at; **synonyms** (prep) in, a, (n) astatine, (adv) on, along, (prf) all, completely, wholly, (adj) entertainment, levee, party, reception, conversazione, home, soiree, **3**. with; **synonyms** (prep) for, alongside, among, plus, (adv) beside, (adj) including, (n) withe, **4**. inside; **synonyms** (adv) inwardly, (n) interior, middle, center, stomach, bosom, contents, (adj) inner, internal, indoor, inland, private, privileged; **antonyms** (n) exterior, (adj) free.
- убнвати 1. kill; synonyms (v) assassinate, destroy, erase, annihilate, eliminate, extinguish, finish, blast, butcher, decimate, dispatch, eradicate, execute, (n) murder, game, 2. murder; synonyms (n) carnage, homicide, slaughter, butchery, bloodshed, killing, (v) massacre, kill, slay, hit, manslaughter, mangle, remove, liquidate, mar.
- younder; synonyms (n) carnage, homicide, slaughter, butchery, bloodshed, (v) massacre, butcher, kill, slay, assassinate, destroy, dispatch, execute, hit, manslaughter, 2. killing; synonyms (v) captivating, fascinating, taking, (n) assassination, cleanup, murder, execution, fatality, (adj) fatal, draining, deadly, pernicious, mortal, murderous, exhausting.
- убивця 1. murderer; *synonyms* (*n*) assassin, cutthroat, killer, manslayer, slayer, liquidator, (*v*) butcher, terrorist, 2. butcher; *synonyms* (*n*) botch, bungler, meatman, murderer, slaughterer, blunderer, botcher, bumbler, bungle, (*v*) assassinate, slaughter, kill, massacre, murder, slay, 3. killer; *synonyms* (*n*) grampus, poison, marauder, orca, playboy, demolisher, (*adj*) murderous, deadly, fatal, competitive, lethal, ruthless, virulent, bloodthirsty, dangerous.
- **убиральня 1**. lavatory; *synonyms* (*n*) bathroom, can, toilet, commode, lav, bath, basin, privy, washbasin, washstand, crapper, **2**. toilet; *synonyms* (*n*) lavatory, attire, dress, stool, costume, guise, raiment, drapery, pot, potty, throne.
- yбити kill; synonyms (v) assassinate, destroy, erase, annihilate, eliminate, extinguish, finish, blast, butcher, decimate, dispatch, eradicate, execute, (n) murder, game.
- убитий casualty; synonyms (n) accident, loss, prey, damage, disaster, fatality, chance, circumstance, contingency, death, misfortune, victim, adventure, hazard.
- y6ik aside; synonyms (adv) apart, by, away, beside, alongside, off, abreast, (n) digression, divagation, parenthesis, statement.
- убогий 1. bald (лисий); synonyms (adj) bare, hairless, simple, austere, meager, threadbare, raw, barefaced, dry, forthright, mere, naked, nude, plain, stark; antonym (adj) hairy, 2. miserable; synonyms (adj) mean, poor, abject, bad, deplorable, desolate, downcast, low, measly, unhappy, distressed, lamentable, cheerless, (v) forlorn, wretched; antonyms (adj) happy, cheerful, generous.
- yδοΓίςΤЬ poverty; synonyms (n) lack, distress, indigence, want, deprivation, impoverishment, pauperism, squalor, necessity, neediness, poorness, (v) destitution, need, penury, deficiency; antonyms (n) wealth, riches.
- уболівальник fan; synonyms (n) admirer, buff, devotee, enthusiast, addict, adherent, afficionado, fiend, follower, advocate, disciple, (v) air, winnow, refresh, blow; antonym (n) detractor.

- убрання clothes; synonyms (n) apparel, attire, clothing, dress, garb, garment, wardrobe, thing, gown, toggery, vesture, wear.
- ybytok waste; synonyms (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; antonyms (v) conserve, save.
- ybara 1. attention; synonyms (n) mind, aid, alertness, care, consideration, heed, notice, attentiveness, caution, concentration, deliberation, diligence, ear, nursing, observation; antonyms (n) inattention, neglect, 2. regard; synonyms (v) attention, concern, estimate, attend, account, believe, consider, count, hold, observe, (n) respect, esteem, deference, look, note; antonym (n) disrespect.
- уважний 1. careful; synonyms (adj) accurate, attentive, thrifty, alert, deliberate, economical, frugal, mindful, prudent, thoughtful, assiduous, aware, cagey, cautious, (v) anxious; antonyms (adj) careless, reckless, slapdash, neglectful, 2. thoughtful; synonyms (adj) considerate, serious, careful, kind, solemn, courteous, discreet, heedful, pensive, sensible, grave, caring, circumspect, gentle, reflective; antonyms (adj) inconsiderate, thoughtfess, heedless, 3. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, good, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, agreeable, correct, decent, delicate, difficult, enjoyable; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible.
- yBaxHictb 1. attention; synonyms (n) mind, aid, alertness, care, consideration, heed, notice, attentiveness, caution, concentration, deliberation, diligence, ear, nursing, observation; antonyms (n) inattention, neglect,
  2. application; synonyms (n) plea, appeal, appliance, demand, effort, exercise, petition, request, use, attention, administration, call, claim, coating, employment.
- yBaжHo closely; synonyms (adv) tightly, close, narrowly, nearly, intimately, strictly, thickly, almost, accurately, attentively, carefully, exactly, intently, near, precisely; antonyms (adv) distantly, loosely.
- **yBecb** total; *synonyms* (adj) aggregate, complete, all, absolute, entire, gross, downright, general, (n) whole, amount, sum, tally, entirety, (v) count, number; antonyms (adj) partial, incomplete, qualified.
- УВОДИТИ introduce; synonyms (v) insert, interject, inject, acquaint, advance, enter, exhibit, implant, inaugurate, infuse, initiate, precede, present, instill, interpose; antonym (v) end.
- ув'язнений confined; synonyms (v) accurate, (adj) captive, close, cramped, imprisoned, limited, bounded, invalided, constrained, narrow, poky, qualified, restricted, strict, jailed; antonym (adj) free.
- yB'язнення 1. custody; synonyms (n) detention, charge, confinement, captivity, care, security, hold, protection, conservation, control, imprisonment, incarceration, keeping, maintenance, (v) keep; antonyms (n) release, freedom, 2. commitment; synonyms (n) dedication, allegiance, appointment, committal, devotion, loyalty, promise, tie, commission, consignment, contract, debt, duty, engagement, faithfulness, 3. imprisonment; synonyms (n) custody, durance, arrest, immurement, internment, duress, (adj) bondage.

- Угадати nick; *synonyms* (n) notch, mark, cut, chip, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (v) dent, steal, hack, indent.
- угода 1. agreement; synonyms (n) accord, acquiescence, concord, accordance, coincidence, contract, acceptance, appointment, arrangement, compliance, confirmation, conformity, correspondence, covenant, settlement; antonyms (n) disagreement, argument, conflict, discord, rejection, dispute, resistance, 2. covenant; synonyms (n) compact, bond, pact, deed, testament, convention, transaction, deal, (v) agreement, bargain, promise, vow, agree, pledge, undertake, **3**. contract; *synonyms* (n) charter, (v) concentrate, condense, narrow, catch, compress, constrict, shrink, wrinkle, abbreviate, diminish, lessen, stipulate, (adj) abridge, shorten; antonyms (v) expand, widen, stretch, 4. treaty; synonyms (n) protocol, alliance, peace, armistice, 5. arrangement; synonyms (n) order, adjustment, array, classification, design, distribution, method, plan. sequence, system, accommodation, composition, construction, contrivance, disposal, **6**. compact; synonyms (adj) close, dense, compendious, concise, hard, solid, summary, thick, concentrated, crowded, firm, (n) engagement, league, (v) consolidate, pack; antonyms (adj) loose, sprawling, bulky, sparse, 7. transaction; synonyms (n) business, dealing, dealings, proceeding, trade, concern, matter, action, affair, negotiation, exchange, affairs, traffic, process, sale; antonym (n) purchase.
- yronoc aloud; synonyms (adv) loud, loudly, clamorously, clearly, distinctly, intelligibly, obstreperously, plainly, vociferously.
- **yropy** upwards; *synonyms* (*adv*) upward, up, upwardly, over, (*adj*) improving, open.
- угрупування group (група); synonyms (n) bunch, brigade, collection, crowd, flock, gang, association, clump, company, gathering, (v) assemblage, class, cluster. rank. sort.
- удаваний 1. assumed; synonyms (adj) false, sham, affected, counterfeit, fake, feigned, fictitious, pretended, reputed, artificial, alleged, assumptive, hypothetical, phony, spurious, 2. affected; synonyms (adj) unnatural, pompous, pretentious, stilted, pedantic, assumed, concerned, contrived, exaggerated, forced, snobbish, strained, studied, theatrical, touched; antonyms (adj) unaffected, down-to-earth, natural, unchanged.
- yдавання assumption; synonyms (n) presumption, supposition, hypothesis, premise, adoption, arrogance, acceptance, belief, conclusion, conjecture, guess, idea, surmise, theory, notion.
- удавати 1. assume; synonyms (v) affect, accept, adopt, appropriate, arrogate, feign, take, presume, sham, simulate, suppose, understand, usurp, feel, acquire, 2. affect; synonyms (v) touch, move, act, fake, impress, pretend, strike, concern, dispose, dissemble, hit, influence, involve, lead, pertain, 3. pretend; synonyms (v) assume, dissimulate, counterfeit, imagine, imitate, profess, mask, masquerade, disguise, kid, trick, (adj) play, pretended, (n) allege, contend; antonyms (v) real, (adj) genuine, natural.

- yдаватися succeed; synonyms (v) follow, replace, arrive, ensue, manage, prevail, prosper, supersede, supplant, do, achieve, flourish, displace, pursue, thrive; antonyms (v) fail, precede, lose.
- удар 1. blow (дути); synonyms (n) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (v) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (adj) gasp; antonyms (v) calm, save, 2. hit; synonyms (v) strike, attain, belt, blow, bump, collide, encounter, clash, club, (n) smash, touch, chance, bash, collision, clout; antonyms (n) failure, flop, 3. knock; synonyms (v) cuff, punch, boot, clip, condemn, criticize, knap, smack, (n) rap, tap, crash, whack, clap, criticism, stroke; antonym (v) praise, 4. stroke; synonyms (n) caress, mark, apoplexy, attack, impact, line, streak, cut, dint, (v) buffet, lick, fondle, move, pat, smite, 5. shock; synonyms (n) daze, outrage, surprise, concussion, fright, scare, (v) jar, offend, revolt, startle, appall, disgust, dismay, frighten, horrify; antonym (v) comfort, **6**. buffet; *synonyms* (n) canteen, restaurant, crack, cupboard, counter, (v) batter, buff, belabor, thump, box, clobber, jog, jostle, kick, (adj) scratch, 7. bang; synonyms (n) slap, thud, clang, explosion, report, snap, thrill, (v) slam, boom, clatter, clink, clank, hammer, rattle, bat, **8**. beat; synonyms (v) flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, baste, break, cheat, crush, exceed, flog, (n) pulse, round, cadence; antonym (v) lose, 9. impact; synonyms (n) force, effect, impingement, impression, influence, consequence, push, upshot, weight, encroachment, (v) affect, contact, ram, 10. kick; synonyms (n) beef, bitch, gripe, charge, excitement, flush, complaint, pleasure, (v) grumble, recoil, spurn, protest, complain, whine, inveigh, 11. pick; synonyms (v) clean, gather, harvest, opt, choose, (n) alternative, elite, best, choice, option, selection, (adj) cream, select, mattock, flower, 12. strike; synonyms (n) assault, dab, (v) impress, coin, mint, lash, hew, afflict, find, pick, pound, reach, get, imprint, peck, 13. push; synonyms (n) press, thrust, poke, elbow, energy, (v) drive, impel, crowd, jab, nudge, prod, jam, rush, boost, fight; antonyms (v) pull, drag, haul.
- ударити 1. bang; *synonyms* (*n*) clap, beat, smack, knock, slap, smash, strike, blast, blow, bump, (*v*) hit, slam, bash, boom, clatter, 2. hit; *synonyms* (*v*) attain, belt, collide, encounter, clash, club, contact, (*n*) bang, touch, chance, collision, play, clout, crack, cuff, *antonyms* (*n*) failure, flop
- ударний striking; synonyms (adj) impressive, dramatic, outstanding, salient, spectacular, imposing, astonishing, conspicuous, extraordinary, notable, noticeable, prominent, remarkable, (n) hit, strike; antonyms (adj) ugly, ordinary, unimpressive.
- ударяти 1. beat; synonyms (v) batter, flap, pulsate, throb, tick, trounce, whip, bat, baste, break, (n) pulse, thump, knock, round, cadence; antonym (v) lose, 2. hit; synonyms (v) strike, attain, belt, blow, bump, collide, encounter, (n) bang, smash, touch, chance, bash, beat, collision, play; antonyms (n) failure, flop, 3. strike; synonyms (n) assault, clap, rap, tap, (v) hit, impress, slap, move, affect, box, buffet, clout, coin, mint, whack.
- **удача** success; *synonyms* (*n*) conquest, achievement, hit, prosperity, passing, accomplishment, effectiveness,

- triumph, victory, achiever, fortune, luck, win, fruition, efficacy; *antonyms* (*n*) failure, flop, debacle, defeat, disappointment, prevention.
- удачливий successful; synonyms (adj) flourishing, fortunate, happy, effective, lucky, auspicious, effectual, fruitful, efficacious, prevalent, efficient, thriving, triumphant, profitable, (n) prosperous; antonyms (adj) unsuccessful, thwarted, dependent, failing, ineffective, sorrowful.
- ygbiqi twice; synonyms (adv) double, doubly, bis, (adj) twenty.
- удосконалення 1. improvement; synonyms (n) advancement, amelioration, betterment, correction, amendment, development, repair, gain, adjustment, advance, enhancement, headway, revision, growth, melioration; antonyms (n) decline, deterioration, downgrade, 2. perfection; synonyms (n) excellence, consummation, ideal, maturity, paragon, completeness, completion, finish, crown, flawlessness, ripeness, integrity, complete, perfect, idol; antonym (n) imperfection.
- YДОСКОНАЛЮВАТИ develop; synonyms (v) advance, amplify, educate, expand, grow, breed, contract, acquire, bloom, blossom, break, bud, build, come, cultivate; antonyms (v) decrease, erupt, neglect, regress.
- удосконалюватися progress; synonyms (n) headway, improvement, furtherance, betterment, gain, course, advancement, development, growth, increase, (v) advance, proceed, continue, develop, go; antonyms (n) decline, deterioration, (v) regress.
- yxe 1. yet; synonyms (adv) however, but, notwithstanding, even, nonetheless, though, besides, further, hitherto, eventually, unless, always, (conj) nevertheless, (n) already, (v) still, 2. already; synonyms (adv) beforehand, previously, before, formerly, once, earlier, finally, (adj) erewhile, present.
- **уживання** usage; *synonyms* (n) habit, practice, employment, method, convention, consuetude, exercise, treatment, usance, wont, ritual, system, (v) use, application, (adi) custom.
- уживати use; synonyms (n) custom, practice, benefit, habit, application, function, (v) exercise, employ, employment, expend, profit, advantage, exploit, occupy, (adj) usage; antonym (v) conserve.
- YЖИТОК usage; synonyms (n) habit, practice, employment, method, convention, consuetude, exercise, treatment, usance, wont, ritual, system, (v) use, application, (adj) custom.
- узбережжя coast; synonyms (n) bank, beach, seaside, shore, seashore, sand, seacoast, shoreline, (v) glide, slide, drift, cruise; antonym (n) interior.
- y3Bi3 ascent; synonyms (n) acclivity, ascension, rise, climb, ascending, elevation, hill, incline, advance, grade, jump, slant, gradient, hike, inclination; antonyms (n) descent, fall.
- узгодженість consistency; synonyms (n) consistence, agreement, body, coherence, consonance, conformity, congruence, congruity, density, uniformity, accordance, concord, compatibility, consentaneousness, accord; antonyms (n) inconsistency, discrepancy.

- узгодження reconciliation; synonyms (n) accommodation, adjustment, agreement, rapprochement, appeasement, harmony, pacification, reconcilement, accord, mediation, atonement, balancing, (v) concord, neare
- узгоджуватися conform; synonyms (v) accommodate, adapt, adjust, agree, accord, fit, assimilate, observe, acquiesce, comply, follow, frame, obey, square, answer; antonyms (v) deviate, differ.
- уздовж 1. aboard; synonyms (prep) athwart, (adv) afloat, alongside, afield, everywhere, here, onboard, there, where, (adj) boarded, consigned, embarked, loaded, topside, traveling, 2. along; synonyms (adv) ahead, forward, lengthwise, on, onward, endlong, (prep) beside, (prf) by; antonym (adv) across.
- y3,Ticcs 1. skirt; synonyms (n) border, edge, brim, flap, kilt, apron, margin, (v) fringe, circumvent, evade, hem, elude, sidestep, verge, dodge, 2. outskirts; synonyms (n) suburb, periphery, environs, boundary, skirt, precincts, frontier, distance, outpost, outside, slub, slurb, sticks
- yka3 decree; synonyms (n) command, act, edict, decision, dictate, finding, judgment, verdict, (v) order, award, decide, enact, ordain, rule, will.
- указувати 1. indicate; synonyms (v) denote, direct, augur, betoken, designate, imply, mark, show, foretell, foreshadow, argue, bespeak, bode, demonstrate, evince,
   2. point; synonyms (n) place, grade, peak, nib, edge, aim, article, degree, dot, spot, phase, apex, detail, (v) head, level.
- укладальник layer; *synonyms* (n) coat, course, coating, cover, film, level, ply, stratum, crust, covering, floor, mantle, row, tier, (v) pile.
- укладати conclude; synonyms (v) close, complete, finish, gather, accomplish, assume, cease, deduce, determine, end, resolve, settle, terminate, decide, derive; antonyms (v) start, begin.
- укладення conclusion; *synonyms* (*n*) closure, close, end, result, cessation, completion, sequel, termination, decision, dissolution, ending, epilogue, finale, finish, (*v*) closing; *antonyms* (*n*) beginning, start, opening, preface.
- уклін bow; *synonyms* (n) arc, curve, obeisance, turn, curvature, (v) bend, arch, stoop, duck, buckle, crouch, incline, kowtow, crook, defer.
- **укриття** lee; *synonyms* (n) leeward, flank, side, quarter, dregs, sediment, (v) lie.
- ykyni together (pa3oM); synonyms (adv) jointly, conjointly, simultaneously, collectively, running, (adj) united, composed, stable, whole; antonyms (adv) individually, separately, independently, (adj) separate.
- укус bite (кусати); synonyms (n) taste, bit, cheat, morsel, (v) sting, nip, chew, cut, pinch, burn, eat, erode, gnaw, hurt, munch.
- улагоджувати 1. accommodate; synonyms (v) adapt, adjust, fit, oblige, contain, fashion, hold, lodge, provide, quarter, reconcile, supply, harmonise, admit, (adf) suit; antonym (v) evict, 2. arrange; synonyms (v) appoint, dress, order, set, settle, pack, agree, classify, compose, decorate, do, engineer, fix, put, straighten; antonyms (v) disturb, disarrange, 3. adjust; synonyms (v) temper,

- accommodate, align, acclimatize, balance, regulate, alter, arrange, change, conform, coordinate, dispose, harmonize, modify, (n) square.
- **УЛАМКИ** debris; *synonyms* (n) detritus, junk, refuse, rubbish, trash, waste, garbage, wreck, muck, remains, ruins, scrap, litter, (*adj*) rubble.
- уламок 1. piece; synonyms (n) cut, division, fragment, part, article, component, composition, hunk, lump, patch, bit, block, chunk, coin, constituent, 2. fragment; synonyms (n) fraction, crumb, morsel, grain, piece, portion, rag, remnant, section, (v) chip, scrap, shiver, splinter, break, crumble, 3. chip; synonyms (n) flake, chipping, fleck, microchip, shaving, check, shell, counter, crisp, (v) crack, nick, peel, cheep, chirp, knap.
- ynamtobybath 1. accommodate; synonyms (v) adapt, adjust, fit, oblige, contain, fashion, hold, lodge, provide, quarter, reconcile, supply, harmonise, admit, (adj) suit; antonym (v) evict, 2. install; synonyms (v) establish, fix, inaugurate, appoint, erect, crown, induct, instal, invest, place, plant, post, put, seat, set; antonym (v) overthrow, 3. organize; synonyms (v) coordinate, constitute, devise, direct, form, institute, regulate, compose, conduct, engineer, found, make, orchestrate, (n) arrange, order; antonym (v) disorganize.
- y.noB yield; synonyms (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; antonyms (v) resist, persevere.
- УЛОГОВИНА рап; synonyms (n) dish, knock, rap, panning, plate, platter, porringer, pot, saucer, calabash, hardpan, (v) slam, criticize, review.
- **улюбленець** pet; *synonyms* (*adj*) favourite, favored, (*n*) favorite, darling, love, beloved, ducky, (*v*) caress, dear, dandle, fondle, baby, pamper, cherish, indulge.
- улюблений 1. favourite; synonyms (adj) favored, (n) favorite, darling, ducky, pet, dearie, deary, blaze, ingle, fire, fireplace, flame, paramour, 2. beloved; synonyms (adj) precious, loved, cherished, sweet, valued, (n) dear, love, dearest, honey, sweetheart, agreeable, idol, lover, 3. lover; synonyms (n) beau, devotee, fan, admirer, buff, beloved, amorist, man, gallant, boyfriend, enthusiast, follower, afficionado, 4. pet; synonyms (adj) favourite, (n) coddle, hug, sweetie, (v) caress, dandle, fondle, baby, pamper, cherish, indulge, pat, cuddle, kiss, soothe.
- yM wit; synonyms (n) humor, wag, humorist, satire, repartee, brain, mentality, sense, sagacity, nous, humour, intelligence, joker, mind, (adj) irony; antonym (n) tragedy.
- умерти die; synonyms (v) decease, dead, death, depart, expire, fall, go, pass, conk, croak, break, cease, fail, (n) dice. matrix.
- умирання dying; *synonyms* (*adj*) vanishing, last, moribund, (*n*) death, demise, decease; *antonyms* (*adj*) thriving, opening, well.
- умирати die; *synonyms* (v) decease, dead, death, depart, expire, fall, go, pass, conk, croak, break, cease, fail, (n) dice, matrix.

- умираючий dying; synonyms (adj) vanishing, last, moribund, (n) death, demise, decease; antonyms (adj) thriving, opening, well.
- умисний 1. deliberate; synonyms (adj) careful, calculated, circumspect, slow, thoughtful, conscious, (v) consider, cogitate, consult, debate, think, confer, contemplate, ponder, reflect; antonyms (adj) accidental, chance, unintentional, hasty, ingenuous, involuntary, spontaneous, 2. calculated; synonyms (v) advised, designed, (adj) deliberate, intended, intentional, premeditated, purposeful, studied, measured, planned, strategic.
- умілий 1. able; synonyms (adj) capable, clever, competent, dexterous, accomplished, adroit, consummate, effective, expert, fit, gifted, ingenious, endowed, (n) efficient, talented; antonyms (adj) incapable, incompetent, inept, unable, untrained, weak, 2. capable; synonyms (adj) able, adequate, adept, proficient, qualified, trained, experienced, good, intelligent, powerful, skilled, skillful, strong, quick, resourceful, 3. skilled; synonyms (adj) practiced, old, learned, sophisticated, versed, deft, perfect, cunning, masterly, handy, crack, knowing, masterful, conversant, educated; antonym (adj) inexperienced.
- уміння 1. art (мистецтво); synonyms (n) know-how, skill, talent, trick, artistry, craft, dexterity, science, accomplishment, aptitude, artfulness, trade, work, address, adroitness, 2. competence; synonyms (n) capacity, adequacy, ability, capability, efficiency, sufficiency, expertise, fitness, competency, facility, faculty, flair, knack, qualification, (adj) proficiency; antonyms (n) incompetence, inability, 3. craft; synonyms (n) boat, art, cunning, guile, fraud, shift, artifice, business, deceit, job, occupation, profession, vessel, calling, chicanery, 4. ability; synonyms (n) hand, cleverness, power, bent, genius, gift, knowledge, might, intelligence, aptness, expertness, force, ingenuity, mastery, means; antonym (n) injury, 5. skill; synonyms (n) finesse, competence, handicraft, diplomacy, acquirement, attainment, experience, practice, prowess, tact, sleight, adeptness, quality, skillfulness, touch; antonym (n) clumsiness.
- ymittatu seat; synonyms (n) place, bench, base, backside, behind, bottom, buttocks, chair, position, post, posterior, (v) locate, put, contain, hold.
- ymoba 1. condition; synonyms (n) circumstance, position, provision, status, standing, attitude, circumstances, clause, predicament, rank, state, term, complaint, (v) aspect, provide, 2. circumstance; synonyms (n) affair, accident, chance, event, incident, matter, occasion, opportunity, adventure, casualty, fact, occurrence, juncture, crisis, phase.
- ymobu circumstance; synonyms (n) affair, state, accident, chance, event, incident, matter, occasion, opportunity, adventure, casualty, fact, occurrence, juncture, crisis.
- ymobutu persuade; synonyms (v) convince, inveigle, allure, assure, cajole, coax, entice, induce, influence, argue, exhort, lure, incite, get, tempt; antonyms (v) discourage, dissuade.
- **умовляти** persuade; *synonyms* (*v*) convince, inveigle, allure, assure, cajole, coax, entice, induce, influence,

- argue, exhort, lure, incite, get, tempt; *antonyms* (v) discourage, dissuade.
- умовний 1. conditional; synonyms (adj) contingent, dependent, qualified, hypothetical, guarded, given, provisional, provisory, subject; antonym (adj) unconditional, 2. conventional; synonyms (adj) formal, orthodox, accepted, common, customary, everyday, conservative, decorous, established, habitual, normal, ordinary, routine, (v) commonplace, familiar; antonyms (adj) unconventional, radical, relaxed, unusual, original, rebellious, unorthodox, 3. relative; synonyms (adj) related, comparative, proportionate, proportional, relevant, (n) relation, brother, connection, congenator, congener, (v) kinsman; antonym (adj) absolute, 4. provisional; synonyms (adj) conditional, makeshift, tentative, probationary, interim, provisionary, temporary, experimental, acting, transient, probative, probatory, trial; antonyms (adj) permanent, definite, 5. nominal; synonyms (adj) titular, token, minimal, minimum, nominative, (v) cognominal; antonym (adj) real.
- умоглядний speculative; *synonyms* (*adj*) risky, theoretical, academic, hypothetical, inquisitive, notional, reflective, chancy, conjectural, insecure, visionary, tentative, (v) contemplative, meditative, pensive.
- yhu3 1. down; synonyms (adv) below, (adj) cut, dejected, depressed, downward, despondent, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, (n) feather, fur, fuzz, (v) consume, devour, drink; antonyms (adv) up, (adj) cheerful, happy, upward, 2. below; synonyms (adv) beneath, under, down, infra, downstairs, (prep) underneath, (adj) low, after; antonyms (prep) above, over, 3. downstairs; synonyms (adv) downhill, (n) floor, (adj) downstair; antonym (adv) upstairs.
- yhuay down; synonyms (adv) below, (adj) cut, dejected, depressed, downward, despondent, dispirited, downcast, downhearted, (n) feather, fur, fuzz, (v) consume, devour, drink; antonyms (adv) up, (adj) cheerful, happy, upward.
- уникати avoid; synonyms (v) shun, avert, parry, escape, evade, abstain, annul, circumvent, duck, elude, forbear, fudge, ignore, prevent, (adj) eschew; antonyms (v) confront, associate, face, tackle.
- універсальний universal; synonyms (adj) general, ecumenical, global, common, international, worldwide, public, ubiquitous, comprehensive, oecumenical, widespread, cosmopolitan, generic, ordinary, pervasive; antonyms (adj) local, specific.
- yHiBepcutet 1. university; synonyms (n) school, academy, academe, faculty, institution, (adj) college, academic, educational, scholastic, 2. college; synonyms (n) association, institute, society, university.
- унікальний unique; synonyms (adj) singular, only, odd, extraordinary, individual, solitary, alone, peculiar, distinct, distinctive, exceptional, incomparable, inimitable, matchless, rare; antonyms (adj) common, ordinary, recurring.
- yHiTa3 bowl; synonyms (n) basin, pot, plate, container, hollow, stadium, arena, depression, bowlful, trough, (v) hurl, roll, toss, troll, trundle.
- y**ніфікація** unification; *synonyms* (*n*) union, amalgamation, combination, merger, fusion, coalition,

- synthesis, consolidation, blending, conglutination; *antonyms* (*n*) separation, division, segregation.
- **упакований** packed; *synonyms* (*adj*) crowded, compact, full, filled, jammed, overcrowded, congested, dense, thick, brimming, close, cramped, teeming; *antonyms* (*adj*) empty, deserted.
- упаковка 1. boxing; synonyms (n) pugilism, fisticuffs, packing, sparring, backpacking, fisticuff, handyfight, parcelling, fistfight, slugfest, wadding, (adj) fighting, 2. package; synonyms (n) bundle, pack, packaging, packet, parcel, carton, container, collection, (v) box, wrap; antonym (v) unwrap.
- ynakobybatu package; synonyms (n) bundle, pack, packaging, packet, parcel, carton, container, collection, (v) box, wrap; antonym (v) unwrap.
- упакувати package; synonyms (n) bundle, pack, packaging, packet, parcel, carton, container, collection, (v) box, wrap; antonym (v) unwrap.
- упевнений 1. confident; synonyms (adj) bold, positive, sure, brave, hopeful, sanguine, secure, fearless, forward, assertive, convinced, decisive, (v) assured, certain, cocksure; antonyms (adj) insecure, uncertain, anxious, frightened, pessimistic, timid, hesitant, unsure, 2. assured; synonyms (adj) confident, definite, guaranteed, reliable, safe, surefire, 3. sure; synonyms (adj) firm, indisputable, dependable, infallible, bound, absolute, fast, fixed, indubitable, stable, true, unerring, unfailing, (adv) certainly, (v) steady; antonym (adj) doubtful.
- упевненість 1. certainty; synonyms (n) assurance, confidence, sureness, trust, certain, certitude, conviction, fact, reality, security, surety, truth, belief, authenticity, assuredness; antonyms (n) doubt, uncertainty, unpredictability, 2. conviction; synonyms (n) certainty, condemnation, persuasion, faith, firmness, creed, determination, doctrine, judgment, reliance, sentence, 3. assurance; synonyms (n) guarantee, pledge, affiance, nerve, poise, promise, vow, warrant, seal, courage, hardihood, audacity, boldness, credence, effrontery; antonym (n) insecurity, 4. reliance; synonyms (n) credit, dependence, dependency, hope, expectation, presumption, 5. security; synonyms (n) protection, safety, hostage, insurance, collateral, guard, secureness, strength, peace, bail, cover, defense, deposit, ease, (v) bond; antonym (n) danger.
- упереджений 1. interested; synonyms (adj) concerned, curious, involved, inquiring, inquisitive, keen, attentive; antonyms (adj) apathetic, uninterested, 2. partial; synonyms (adj) incomplete, imperfect, fragmentary, unfair, sectional, inequitable, biased, part, unequal, halfway, partisan, prejudiced, unfinished, unjust, (v) party; antonyms (adj) complete, impartial, total, absolute, comprehensive, unbiased.
- упередження prejudice; synonyms (n) bias, disadvantage, partiality, discrimination, hurt, preconception, bigotry, detriment, slant, inclination, (v) harm, influence, damage, predispose, injure; antonyms (n) tolerance, fairness.
- упізнавання recognition; *synonyms* (n) acknowledgment, appreciation, identification, perception, cognizance, acceptance, acknowledgement,

- admission, approval, avowal, credit, realization, remembrance, salute, (adj) reception.
- упокорювати humble; synonyms (adj) base, docile, low, lowly, modest, unassuming, baseborn, (v) degrade, demean, disgrace, abase, debase, humiliate, mortify, conquer; antonyms (adj) grand, arrogant, conceited, haughty, imposing, impressive, pompous, snooty.
- ynonepek across; synonyms (prep) athwart, cross, overthwart, (adv) over, crossways, crosswise, (adj) crossed; antonyms (adv) along, (adj) uncrossed.
- **упорскування** injection; *synonyms* (n) shot, clyster, enema, inoculation, jab, vaccination, injectant, medicine.
- упорядковувати adjust; synonyms (v) temper, accommodate, adapt, align, acclimatize, balance, fit, fix, reconcile, regulate, set, alter, arrange, (adj) dress, (n) square.
- управитель 1. administrator; synonyms (n) executive, director, manager, boss, officer, official, supervisor, governor, principal, ruler, superintendent, 2. director; synonyms (n) commander, administrator, chief, chairman, coach, controller, guide, head, leader, master, captain, inspector, instructor, (v) conductor, direct, 3. manager; synonyms (n) handler, superior, entrepreneur, owner, trainer; antonym (n) underling, 4. grave; synonyms (adj) austere, critical, serious, severe, solemn, earnest, bad, dangerous, deep, grand, important, sad, sedate, (v) acute, engrave; antonyms (adj) mild, frivolous, funny.
- управління 1. administration; synonyms (n) management, direction, organization, running, power, execution, executive, government, leadership, reign, rule, supervision, department, application, incumbency, 2. management; synonyms (n) administration, conduct, guidance, command, control, handling, charge, treatment, behavior, steerage, disposition, arrangement, order, oversight, (v) manage, 3. control; synonyms (n) authority, care, hold, influence, sway, ascendancy, ascendency, dominance, regulation, (v) check, curb, bridle, handle, conquer, contain; antonyms (n) freedom, weakness, (v) intensify, share, 4. board; synonyms (n) council, bench, meal, panel, table, office, sign, commission, committee, court, embark, plank, (v) keep, lodge, accommodate; antonym (v) disembark, 5. department; synonyms (n) bureau, compartment, area, agency, class, faculty, section, arm, branch, division, domain, field, line, part, realm, 6. government; synonyms (n) dominion, governance, cabinet, authorities, governing, politics, regime, establishment, regimen, adjustment, bureaucracy, dynasty, (adj) empire, public, national, 7. bureau; synonyms (n) chest, desk, dresser, box, **8**. disposal; *synonyms* (n) distribution, sale, alienation, classification, dispensation, adhibition, 9. leadership; synonyms (n) lead, generalship, leading, supremacy, leaders, 10. office; synonyms (n) duty, function, position, appointment, berth, job, place, post, engagement, employment, location, business, mission, occupation, role, 11. ruling; synonyms (adj) regnant, reigning, prevailing, prevalent, (n) judgment, decision, decree, edict, act, directive, judgement, law, opinion,

pronouncement, verdict.

- управлінський administrative; synonyms (adj) departmental, official, managerial, authoritative, (v) executive.
- управляти operate; *synonyms* (*v*) act, function, run, direct, employ, go, handle, manage, move, perform, proceed, work, maneuver, exercise, fly.
- управляючий 1. governing; synonyms (adj) dominant, leading, ruling, ascendant, chief, predominant, prevailing, executive, (n) governance, administration, government, 2. steward; synonyms (n) custodian, keeper, waiter, warden, attendant, curator, agent, supervisor, questor, receiver.
- упряж tackle; synonyms (v) handle, harness, undertake, attempt, stop, struggle, grapple, (n) gear, equipment, rigging, kit, paraphernalia, rig, apparatus, outfit; antonym (v) avoid.
- YIIYILEHHЯ omission; synonyms (n) failure, error, exclusion, fault, ellipsis, inadvertence, mistake, neglect, oversight, flaw, default, deletion, pretermission, slip, (adi) defect; antonyms (n) inclusion, adherence.
- **yparah** hurricane; *synonyms* (n) gale, storm, tempest, cyclone, squall, tornado, twister, whirlwind.
- ypaжatu 1. attack; synonyms (n) incursion, thrust, aggression, fit, onset, onslaught, seizure, (v) assault, assail, attempt, aggress, charge, invade, raid, accuse; antonyms (n) defense, (v) defend, protect, retreat, 2. affect; synonyms (v) touch, move, act, fake, feign, impress, pretend, strike, concern, dispose, dissemble, hit, influence, involve, lead, 3. strike; synonyms (n) knock, clap, rap, smash, (v) bang, beat, slap, affect, box, buffet, bump, clout, coin, collide, mint.
- уразливий 1. vulnerable; synonyms (adj) weak, exposed, sensitive, susceptible, tender, defenseless, feeble, unguarded, unprotected, insecure, impressionable, powerless, liable, subject, (v) frail; antonyms (adj) safe, impervious, invincible, invulnerable, unassailable, unbeatable, secure, untouchable, 2. sensitive; synonyms (adj) delicate, excitable, sensible, sore, painful, emotional, gentle, irritable, perceptive, receptive, nice, nervous, exquisite, considerate, keen; antonyms (adj) insensitive, numb, hardhearted, tactless, thick-skinned.
- **уразливість** vulnerability; *synonyms* (*n*) exposure, weakness, danger, vulnerableness, defenselessness, peril; *antonym* (*n*) invulnerability.
- **ypaH** uranium; *synonyms* (*v*) radiation, radioactivity, tritium, plutonium, radium, radon.
- урегульований resolved; synonyms (v) resolute, (adj) determined, definite, firm, fixed, set, certain, decided, conclusive, intent, final, positive, solved, unyielding, bent
- урегулювання settlement; synonyms (n) decision, accommodation, colony, hamlet, payment, arrangement, conclusion, resolution, determination, contract, adjustment, agreement, colonization, establishment, liquidation.
- уривок 1. passage; *synonyms* (*n*) aisle, course, channel, corridor, gangway, hall, journey, entry, way, entrance, lobby, duct, opening, avenue, citation, **2**. fragment; *synonyms* (*n*) fraction, crumb, morsel, part, division, grain, piece, portion, (*v*) bit, chip, scrap, shiver, splinter,

- break, crumble, **3**. extract; synonyms (n) excerpt, essence, juice, quotation, quote, (v) draw, abstract, derive, educe, elicit, distill, express, get, extort, cull, **4**. piece; synonyms (n) cut, fragment, article, component, composition, hunk, lump, patch, block, chunk, coin, constituent, cutting, gun, item.
- уривчасто shortly; synonyms (adv) presently, briefly, soon, immediately, abruptly, concisely, curtly, short, anon, now, brusquely, directly, quickly, rapidly, (adj) forthwith.
- урівноважений 1. balanced; synonyms (adj) equal, even, firm, regular, stable, steady, harmonious, impartial, steadfast, symmetrical, uniform, fast, fixed, secure, unprejudiced; antonyms (adj) biased, unbalanced, unfair, 2. even; synonyms (adv) yet, (adj) direct, constant, equable, equivalent, flat, horizontal, identical, plane, clear, balanced, equitable, (v) level, balance, smooth; antonyms (adj) uneven, inconsistent, irregular, jagged, unequal.
- уродженець native; synonyms (adj) inborn, inherent, innate, natural, congenital, domestic, inbred, indigenous, autochthonous, connatural, genuine, (n) aboriginal, autochthon, citizen, inhabitant; antonyms (adj) foreign, learned, (n) stranger, immigrant, imported.
- ypoжaй 1. yield; synonyms (n) produce, return, give, output, proceeds, (v) surrender, allow, concede, submit, cede, grant, relinquish, bow, accede, afford; antonyms (v) resist, persevere, 2. harvest; synonyms (n) crop, fruit, ingathering, profit, yield, (v) gain, gather, glean, amass, collect, garner, get, pick, reap, earn, 3. crop; synonyms (n) harvest, craw, (v) browse, graze, top, cultivate, cut, lop, prune, shave, trim, reduce, (adj) clip, shear, dock, 4. plant; synonyms (n) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, (v) fix, place, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lav, bury.
- ypoκ 1. lesson; synonyms (n) exercise, example, instruction, class, learning, message, moral, reading, sermon, study, task, warning, contraindication, (v) rebuke, 2. task; synonyms (n) job, assignment, charge, commission, duty, enterprise, labor, project, stint, occupation, activity, business, chore, function, (v) tax, 3. job; synonyms (n) employment, position, work, career, matter, post, concern, line, mission, office, profession, trade, vocation, appointment, berth.
- **YPOUNCTICTL** gravity; synonyms (n) earnestness, solemnity, graveness, gravitation, seriousness, significance, weight, sedateness, austerity, importance, moment, staidness, gloominess, sobriety, (v) poise; antonyms (n) flippancy, insignificance, lightheartedness.
- уряд 1. government; *synonyms* (*n*) administration, authority, control, direction, command, dominion, governance, cabinet, authorities, governing, guidance, (*adj*) empire, rule, (*v*) conduct, management, **2**. administration; *synonyms* (*n*) organization, running, power, execution, executive, government, leadership, reign, supervision, department, application, incumbency, ministry, charge, disposal, **3**. cabinet; *synonyms* (*n*) case, closet, locker, press, cupboard, chamber, console, sideboard, board, council.
- **урядовий 1**. governmental; *synonyms* (*adj*) administrative, national, public, civil, clerical,

- directorial, executive, lawmaking, legislative, managerial, organizational, secretarial, **2**. ministerial; *synonyms* (*adj*) pastoral, priestly, sacerdotal, subservient, theocratic, ministral, prelatical, religious, attendant, contributive, serving.
- ycamithehha privacy; synonyms (n) seclusion, secrecy, confidentiality, darkness, privateness, retreat, concealment, loneliness, shelter, retirement, solitude.
- усвідомити wake; *synonyms* (v) awaken, awake, rouse, stir, arouse, excite, provoke, vigil, waken, kindle, (n) train, trail, backwash, track, wave; *antonym* (v) sleep.
- усвідомлення 1. perception; synonyms (n) apprehension, conception, idea, notion, discernment, feeling, impression, insight, comprehension, acumen, awareness, image, observation, penetration, sensation, 2. realization; synonyms (n) execution, accomplishment, fulfillment, implementation, actualization, fruition, realisation, completion, grasp, achievement, actualisation, attainment, consummation, performance, recognition.
- усвідомлювати 1. appreciate; *synonyms* (v) esteem, prize, treasure, value, appraise, fathom, acknowledge, admire, apprize, cherish, comprehend, enjoy, estimate, grasp, (adj) understand; antonyms (v) depreciate, scorn, 2. acknowledge; *synonyms* (v) accept, avow, confess, recognize, own, profess, admit, appreciate, concede, declare, notice, affirm, agree, answer, confirm; antonyms (v) deny, ignore, overlook, reject, 3. recognize (визнавати); *synonyms* (v) know, discern, distinguish, identify, discover, allow, realize, descry, accredit, agnize, perceive, see, detect, hail, agnise, 4. understand; *synonyms* (v) interpret, catch, hear, learn, assume, believe, construe, deduce, gather, read, translate, suppose, apprehend, consider, (adj) take; antonyms (v) misinterpret, misconstrue, misunderstand.
- ycepeдинi inside; synonyms (adv) indoors, inwardly, within, (n) interior, middle, center, stomach, bosom, contents, (adj) inner, internal, indoor, inland, inward, private; antonyms (prep) outside, (n) exterior, (adj) free.
- усиновити adopt; synonyms (v) accept, admit, affiliate, assume, borrow, espouse, pass, take, acquire, choose, embrace, follow, imitate, naturalize, prefer; antonym (v) reject.
- усиновлення adoption; synonyms (n) acceptance, espousal, assumption, borrowing, cooptation, enactment, maintenance, affiliation, (adj) conversion, inspiration, justification, regeneration, salvation, sanctification, (v) passage.
- усиновляти 1. adopt; synonyms (v) accept, admit, affiliate, assume, borrow, espouse, pass, take, acquire, choose, embrace, follow, imitate, naturalize, prefer; antonym (v) reject, 2. legitimate; synonyms (adj) legal, authentic, lawful, genuine, just, orthodox, valid, justifiable, licit, logical, real, (v) legalize, legitimatize, legitimize, permissible; antonyms (adj) banned, illegal, informal, unlawful, bogus, illegitimate, invalid.
- усілякий all; synonyms (adv) whole, purely, altogether, entirely, totally, wholly, apiece, (adj) universal, each, every, gross, complete, alone, (n) aggregate, (det) any; antonyms (pron) none, (det) some.

- УСКЛАДНЕНИЙ complicated; synonyms (adj) complex, intricate, elaborate, hard, complicate, awkward, convoluted, deep, difficult, knotty, obscure, sophisticated, tortuous, tricky, (v) involved; antonyms (adj) simple, straightforward, clear, easy.
- ycmixatucs smile; synonyms (n) grin, grinning, smiling, expression, luck, (v) beam, laugh, chuckle, grimace, sneer, countenance, favor, propitiousness; antonym (v) frown
- ycmimra smile; synonyms (n) grin, grinning, smiling, expression, luck, (v) beam, laugh, chuckle, grimace, sneer, countenance, favor, propitiousness; antonym (v) frown.
- усмоктування absorption; synonyms (n) assimilation, attention, concentration, inhalation, engrossment, ingestion, preoccupation, abstraction, amalgamation, interest
- **YCMOKTYBATH** absorb; *synonyms* (v) consume, drink, engross, imbibe, assimilate, engage, occupy, suck, swallow, amuse, digest, engulf, fascinate, ingest, (*adj*) immerse; *antonyms* (v) bore, emit.
- усний 1. oral; synonyms (adj) spoken, vocal, unwritten, verbal, (n) examination; antonym (adj) written, 2. verbal; synonyms (adj) oral, literal, wordy, talkative, exact, nominal, verbarian, choral, expressed, rhetorical, said, singing, speaking, stated, told, 3. vocal; synonyms (adj) outspoken, sonant, sonorous, vowel, eloquent, instrumental, sung; antonym (adj) quiet.
- усолоджувати delight; synonyms (n) joy, amusement, pleasure, rejoicing, bliss, delectation, gladness, (v) charm, amuse, please, ravish, captivate, cheer, enrapture, gratify; antonyms (n) sorrow, misery, (v) depress, displease.
- успадковувати succeed; synonyms (v) follow, replace, arrive, ensue, manage, prevail, prosper, supersede, supplant, do, achieve, flourish, displace, pursue, thrive; antonyms (v) fail, precede, lose.
- успадкування inheritance; *synonyms* (*n*) heritage, heredity, heirloom, legacy, dowry, estate, appanage, acquisition, dower, genetics, (*v*) descent.
- **VCIIX 1.** Success; *synonyms* (n) conquest, achievement, hit, prosperity, passing, accomplishment, effectiveness. triumph, victory, achiever, fortune, luck, win, fruition, efficacy; antonyms (n) failure, flop, debacle, defeat, disappointment, prevention, 2. achievement; synonyms (n) performance, completion, deed, execution. exploit, act, action, attainment, fulfillment, effort, implementation, acquisition, discharge, gain, (adi) feat, 3. advancement; synonyms (n) advance, promotion, furtherance, upgrade, growth, cultivation, development. elevation, improvement, progress, progression, profit, betterment, exaltation, headway, 4. career; synonyms (n) calling, race, profession, vocation, business, craft, life, occupation, pursuit, (adj) job, occupational, (v) course, dash, speed, fly, 5. progress; synonyms (n) advancement, increase, movement, passage, process, (v) proceed, continue, develop, go, move, grow, improve, pass, prosper, way; antonyms (n) decline, deterioration, (v) regress, 6. prosperity; synonyms (n) affluence, success, wealth, flourish, welfare, opulence, abundance,

- good, prosperousness, benefit, riches, thrift, ease, (adv) happiness, weal; **antonym** (n) poverty.
- успішний 1. successful; synonyms (adj) flourishing, fortunate, happy, effective, lucky, auspicious, effectual, fruitful, efficacious, prevalent, efficient, thriving, triumphant, profitable, (n) prosperous; antonyms (adj) unsuccessful, thwarted, dependent, failing, ineffective, sorrowful, 2. useful; synonyms (adj) beneficial, handy, helpful, practical, advantageous, convenient, valuable, functional, clever, constructive, gainful, serviceable, usable, good, suitable; antonyms (adj) useless, worthless, 3. prosperous; synonyms (adj) favorable, opulent, affluent, comfortable, easy, palmy, rich, successful, well-off, propitious, booming, favourable, prospering, wealthy, golden; antonym (adj) poor.
- успішно 1. happily; synonyms (adv) fortunately, gladly, blissfully, cheerfully, joyfully, joyously, luckily, merrily, providentially, blithely, brightly, gayly; antonyms (adv) sadly, unhappily, unfortunately, (v) miserably, 2. successfully; synonyms (adv) well, swimmingly, happily, efficiently, prosperously, abundantly, contentedly, dexterously, favorably, felicitously, productively, prolifically, smoothly, delightedly, effectively; antonyms (adv) sorrowfully, ineffectively, unsuccessfully.
- ycta mouth (pot); synonyms (n) jaw, lip, aperture, lips, edge, entrance, brim, (v) grimace, articulate, pronounce, speak, utter, vocalize, blab, deliver.
- yctahoba 1. institution; synonyms (n) creation, establishment, institute, formation, asylum, founding, academy, custom, foundation, initiation, organization, tradition, induction, practice, college, 2. establishment; synonyms (n) business, company, constitution, institution, concern, enactment, settlement, introduction, administration, colonization, dwelling, footing, management, construction, enterprise; antonyms (n) elimination, end, 3. organ; synonyms (n) instrument, member, limb, agency, harmonium, medium, part, means, journal, channel.
- yctahobutu install; synonyms (v) establish, fix, inaugurate, appoint, erect, crown, induct, instal, invest, lodge, place, plant, post, put, quarter; antonym (v) overthrow.
- yctahobka 1. adjustment; synonyms (n) adaptation, accommodation, alteration, control, fit, settlement, allowance, arrangement, change, disposition, modification, standardization, agreement, amendment, (adj) adaption, 2. installation; synonyms (n) establishment, induction, facility, inauguration, initiation, installment, investiture, plant, appointment, installing, introduction, 3. plant; synonyms (n) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, (v) fix, place, embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, lay, bury.
- установлений 1. established; synonyms (v) settled, (adj) conventional, accepted, firm, fixed, regular, set, decided, confirmed, secure, accomplished, customary, effected, orthodox, completed; antonym (adj) unproven, 2. stated; synonyms (adj) declared, explicit, certain, (adv) given, 3. mounted; synonym (adj) equestrian.

- Yстановлювати 1. mount; synonyms (v) ascend, rise, climb, board, arise, advance, jump, bestride, grow, increase, ride, scale, (n) hill, frame, mountain; antonyms (v) descend, drop, (n) valley, 2. state (держава); synonyms (n) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, place, (v) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, (adj) national; antonyms (v) deny, (adj) private, 3. set; synonyms (v) fix, lay, put, locate, regulate, define, adjust, arrange, congeal, (n) class, bent, circle, (adj) fixed, fast, secure; antonyms (v) soften, liquefy, melt, (n) combing, comb-out, (adj) variable, flexible, liquid, 4. plant; synonyms (n) manufactory, equipment, factory, herb, mill, bush, (v) embed, graft, set, constitute, establish, found, bury, cultivate, appoint.
- yctahobjatu install; synonyms (v) establish, fix, inaugurate, appoint, erect, crown, induct, instal, invest, lodge, place, plant, post, put, quarter; antonym (v) overthrow.
- установчий constituent; synonyms (adj) integral, (n) component, ingredient, element, factor, part, division, elector, item, member, piece, agent; antonyms (n) aggregate, composite, whole.
- устаткування 1. equipment; synonyms (n) material, apparatus, facility, gear, outfit, furnishings, apparel, accoutrements, baggage, goods, belongings, device, kit, stuff, (v) furniture, 2. outfit; synonyms (n) dress, garb, clothing, company, costume, ensemble, rig, pack, clothes, group, (v) equipment, attire, equip, fit, furnish.
- yctpiii system; synonyms (n) method, arrangement, network, organization, plan, order, means, structure, process, form, frame, rule, establishment, mode, organisation.
- уступ shelf (полиця); synonyms (n) ledge, rack, bank, flat, projection, board, frame, shallows, stand, support, bench, bracket, breakers, (adj) shallow.
- ycyвати 1. eliminate; synonyms (v) abolish, delete, rid, annihilate, cancel, dispel, eradicate, extinguish, obliterate, take, clear, destroy, discard, dismiss, erase, 2. smooth; synonyms (adj) easy, calm, level, oily, facile, flat, flowing, fluent, fluid, glossy, graceful, greasy, (v) quiet, facilitate, even; antonyms (adj) rough, uneven, abrasive, coarse, crumpled, flaking, harsh, jerky, lined, peeling, prickly, ridged, wrinkled, corrugated, (v) wrinkle.
- ycyhehha 1. elimination; synonyms (n) cancellation, discharge, excretion, annihilation, abolition, deletion, ejection, eradication, evacuation, exclusion, liquidation, omission, purge, riddance, (v) removal; antonyms (n) addition, establishment, 2. disposal; synonyms (n) disposition, administration, distribution, organization, sale, alienation, classification, adjustment, arrangement, control, direction, dispensation, order, adhibition, 3. removal; synonyms (n) transfer, dismissal, elimination, expulsion, shift, ablation, remove, move, withdrawal, eviction, remotion, deposition, relocation, banishment, departure; antonyms (n) insertion, retention.
- усього altogether; synonyms (adv) absolutely, all, wholly, completely, entirely, perfectly, purely, simply, totally, ensemble, fully, utterly, generally, quite, thoroughly; antonym (adv) partly.

- усюди 1. everywhere; *synonyms* (*adv*) everyplace, overall, somewhere, where, (*pron*) anywhere, (*n*) anyplace, 2. throughout; *synonyms* (*prep*) during, (*adv*) around, about, bodily, passim.
- утворення 1. formation; *synonyms* (*n*) constitution, creation, establishment, construction, genesis, arrangement, composition, organization, configuration, conformation, generation, production, architecture, erection, (*v*) fabrication; *antonym* (*n*) destruction, 2. creation; *synonyms* (*n*) cosmos, world, invention, conception, creature, formation, foundation, founding, piece, product, universe, work, innovation, beginning, building; *antonym* (*n*) end.
- **УТВОРЮВАТИ** form; *synonyms* (*n*) figure, design, arrange, ceremony, shape, class, conformation, (*ν*) cast, make, fashion, build, constitute, establish, carve, construct.
- YTEKTU escape; synonyms (v) elude, break, dodge, avoid, evade, run, bolt, circumvent, leave, duck, bilk, (n) leak, avoidance, evasion, outlet; antonyms (v) capture, return.
- УТИЛЬ Waste; synonyms (n) desert, refuse, damage, trash, (adj) spoil, desolate, barren, (v) consume, exhaust, ruin, squander, ravage, destruction, devastate, dissipate; antonyms (v) conserve, save.
- **YTHCK** oppression; *synonyms* (n) injustice, abuse, despotism, tyranny, weight, dictatorship, stress, wrong, severity, violence, compression, (ν) hardship, grievance, (adj) autocracy, molestation.
- ytikatu 1. bolt; synonyms (n) arrow, dash, pin, catch, (v) bar, abscond, gobble, latch, lock, escape, decamp, devour, fasten, gulp, (adv) bang; antonyms (v) nibble, unbolt, unlock, 2. escape; synonyms (v) elude, break, dodge, avoid, evade, run, bolt, circumvent, leave, duck, bilk, (n) leak, avoidance, evasion, outlet; antonyms (v) capture, return.
- yrikau refugee; *synonyms* (n) fugitive, emigrant, exile, migrant, expatriate, outcast.
- yrixa 1. comfort; synonyms (n) solace, ease, consolation, relief, aid, amenity, assistance, support, alleviation, (v) allay, assuage, cheer, alleviate, soothe, (adj) calm; antonyms (n) discomfort, aggravation, (v) alarm, annoy, frighten, 2. joy; synonyms (n) delight, enjoyment, elation, gladness, glee, happiness, pleasure, bliss, ecstasy, excitement, exhilaration, exultation, fun, (v) exult, gladden; antonyms (n) misery, sorrow, sadness, disaster, grief.
- ytimatu comfort; synonyms (n) solace, ease, consolation, relief, aid, amenity, assistance, support, alleviation, (v) allay, assuage, cheer, alleviate, soothe, (adj) calm; antonyms (n) discomfort, aggravation, (v) alarm, annoy, frighten.
- **УТОЧНИТИ** Specify; *synonyms* (*v*) name, designate, signify, define, assign, describe, determine, fix, prescribe, set, enumerate, mark, (*n*) detail, particularize, appoint; *antonym* (*v*) simplify.
- **УТОЧНЮВАТИ** Specify; *synonyms* (*v*) name, designate, signify, define, assign, describe, determine, fix, prescribe, set, enumerate, mark, (*n*) detail, particularize, appoint; *antonym* (*v*) simplify.
- ytpata loss (Btpata); synonyms (n) hurt, damage, defeat, detriment, injury, deficit, deprivation, destruction, forfeit, forfeiture, bereavement, decrease, cost, fall, (adj)

- harm; *antonyms* (n) appearance, retrieval, victory, gaining, income, recovery.
- утриманець dependent; synonyms (adj) subject, subordinate, contingent, addicted, tributary, relative, secondary, (n) dependant, charge, adjective, attendant, follower, servant, slave, vassal; antonyms (adj) independent, self-governing, self-sufficient.
- утримання 1. maintenance; *synonyms* (n) livelihood, alimony, care, keep, living, sustenance, charge, conservation, continuation, custody, preservation, service, support, sustainment, sustentation; *antonym* (n) end, 2. holding; *synonyms* (n) estate, belongings, hold, keeping, claim, capture, interest, occupation, ownership, property, retention, take, tenure, demand, (*adj*) retaining.
- утримувати 1. maintain; synonyms (v) continue, justify, affirm, allege, assert, aver, conserve, declare, defend, guard, hold, keep, preserve, bear, insist; antonyms (v) deny, change, 2. keep (тримати); synonyms (v) retain, have, maintain, celebrate, confine, observe, reserve, save, commemorate, check, harbor, direct, rear, (n) custody, maintenance; antonyms (v) dump, lose, 3. hold; synonyms (v) detain, endure, adhere, comprise, contain, entertain, arrest, carry, delay, support, (n) grasp, grip, clasp, clutch, handle; antonym (v) release, 4. retain; synonyms (v) employ, engage, hire, own, possess, occupy, remember, restrain, withhold, control, prevent, remain, sustain, uphold, admit.
- **утруднення** embarrassment; *synonyms* (*n*) confusion, difficulty, dilemma, discomfiture, quandary, bewilderment, humiliation, mortification, shame, uneasiness, chagrin, anxiety, (*v*) distress, embarrass, (*adj*) perplexity.
- **УТРУДНЮВАТИ** press; *synonyms* (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push, urge, clasp, (adj) constrain.
- yxbana award; synonyms (n) judgment, accolade, decoration, medal, prize, (v) accord, grant, bestow, confer, honor, present, assign, give, allow, allot.
- **УХВАЛИТИ** decree; *synonyms* (*n*) command, act, edict, decision, dictate, finding, judgment, verdict, (*v*) order, award, decide, enact, ordain, rule, will.
- ухвалювати decree; synonyms (n) command, act, edict, decision, dictate, finding, judgment, verdict, (v) order, award, decide, enact, ordain, rule, will.
- ухил 1. gradient; synonyms (n) grade, slope, pitch, tilt, declivity, hill, inclination, incline, rise, slant, abruptness, descent, ramp, (v) acclivity, ascent, 2. bias; synonyms (n) penchant, drift, influence, turn, twist, favor, angle, bigotry, disposition, (v) prejudice, bent, dispose, (adj) partiality, diagonal, leaning; antonyms (n) impartiality, neutrality, fairness.
- ухильний indirect; synonyms (adj) circuitous, collateral, incidental, crooked, devious, oblique, roundabout, secondary, side, tortuous, winding, disingenuous, obscure, backhanded, implied; antonyms (adj) direct, overt.
- **УХИЛЯТИСЯ** avoid; *synonyms* (v) shun, avert, parry, escape, evade, abstain, annul, circumvent, duck, elude, forbear, fudge, ignore, prevent, (*adj*) eschew; *antonyms* (v) confront, associate, face, tackle.

- **учасник** 1. participant; *synonyms* (*n*) contestant, entrant, party, player, actor, partner, assistant, entry, applicant, candidate, contender, enemy, enthusiast, fighter, follower; *antonyms* (*n*) onlooker, viewer, **2**. partner; *synonyms* (*n*) consort, copartner, accomplice, associate, companion, fellow, ally, collaborator, colleague, mate, pal, friend, confederate, wife, (*adi*) comrade.
- yuacrb 1. participation; synonyms (n) involvement, interest, contribution, attendance, complicity, communion, association, connection, affair, concert, concurrence, engagement, voice, 2. partnership; synonyms (n) company, corporation, alliance, copartnership, business, firm, participation, fellowship, confederation, fraternity, companionship, coalition, affiliation, combination, cooperation, 3. part; synonyms (n) constituent, piece, article, character, component, cut, division, portion, section, share, (v) branch, break, disjoin, divide, divorce; antonyms (n) whole, entirety, (adj) complete, 4. share; synonyms (n) deal, dole, lot, allotment, proportion, ration, (v) participate, allot, apportion, distribute, part, partake, dispense, partition, assign; antonym (v) control.
- учений 1. learned; synonyms (v) knowing, (adj) erudite, educated, enlightened, knowledgeable, wise, academic, scholarly, bookish, cultured, intellectual, lettered, literary, studious, informed; antonyms (adj) ignorant, innate, 2. scholar; synonyms (n) learner, pupil, student, pundit, apprentice, brain, disciple, adherent, follower; antonym (n) dilettante.
- ученість 1. scholarship; *synonyms* (*n*) erudition, learning, lore, education, award, learnedness, letters, reading, edification, allowance, science, eruditeness, literacy, prize, (*v*) knowledge, 2. learning; *synonyms* (*n*) acquisition, enlightenment, culture, scholarship, wisdom, acquirement, letter, literature, (*v*) instruction.
- учень 1. pupil; *synonyms* (*n*) follower, learner, student, scholar, apprentice, disciple, trainee, schoolchild, novice, adherent, tyro, ward, beginner, educatee, 2. learner; *synonyms* (*n*) pupil, prentice, 3. student; *synonym* (*n*) savant; *antonym* (*n*) teacher.
- учинок action; *synonyms* (n) act, accomplishment, activity, agency, battle, deed, effect, engagement, fight, movement, performance, play, behavior, case, (v) achievement; *antonyms* (n) inaction, inactivity.
- учитель 1. teacher; synonyms (n) instructor, master, coach, preceptor, educator, mentor, tutor, guide, missionary, trainer, adviser, counselor, guru; antonym (n) student, 2. instructor; synonyms (n) teacher, lecturer, institutor, 3. master; synonyms (n) captain, head, boss, leader, gentleman, (v) conquer, control, command, defeat, dominate, (adj) chief, original, ace, expert, proficient.
- учити 1. teach (навчати); synonyms (v) inform, enlighten, coach, educate, instruct, indoctrinate, drill, learn, lecture, school, direct, discipline, form, (adj) guide, show, 2. learn; synonyms (v) discover, get, know, find, ascertain, have, hear, determine, acquire, con, perceive, study, tell, understand, gather.
- yuttucs 1. learn; synonyms (v) discover, get, know, find, ascertain, have, hear, determine, acquire, con, perceive, study, tell, understand, gather, 2. study; synonyms (n)

- survey, consideration, investigation, learning, (v) consider, examine, review, learn, research, check, analyze, contemplate, inquire, investigate, meditate.
- **yuopa** yesterday; *synonyms* (n) past, history, bygone, foretime, (adj) passé, stale; *antonym* (n) tomorrow.
- ущелина hope (надія, сподівання); synonyms (v) trust, anticipate, confide, expect, wish, await, look, (n) aspiration, belief, desire, expectation, faith, anticipation, confidence, expectancy; antonyms (v) despair, (n) reality.
- ущільнений packed; *synonyms* (*adj*) crowded, compact, full, filled, jammed, overcrowded, congested, dense, thick, brimming, close, cramped, teeming; *antonyms* (*adj*) empty, deserted.
- ушільнювати 1. compact; synonyms (adj) close, dense, compendious, concise, hard, (n) agreement, arrangement, contract, covenant, bargain, engagement, (v) compress, condense, consolidate, pack; antonyms (adj) loose, sprawling, bulky, sparse, 2. firm; synonyms (n) company, (adj) constant, stable, compact, determined, fixed, resolute, solid, steadfast, steady, strong, decisive, fast, (v) faithful, durable; antonyms (adj) irresolute, soft, weak, hesitant, limp, liquid, soggy, 3. impact; synonyms (n) hit, shock, blow, clash, collision, crash, force, effect, impingement, impression, influence, touch, (v) affect, contact, ram.
- yaba 1. imagination; synonyms (n) fantasy, fancy, vision, dream, conceit, imagery, invention, originality, caprice, conception, idea, imaginativeness, inventiveness, notion; reflection; antonym (n) reality, 2. fantasy; synonyms (n) illusion, delusion, mirage, desire, fad, fiction, hallucination, reverie, deception, chimera, imagination, phantasy, romance, whim, (adj) make-believe; antonym (adj) real, 3. fancy; synonyms (v) daydream, imagine, wish, consider, crotchet, envision, like, assume, conjecture, (adj) conceive, elaborate, extravagant, ween, (n) thought, guess; antonyms (adj) plain, unadorned.
- уявлення 1. idea; synonyms (n) belief, concept, meaning, opinion, apprehension, conception, consideration, design, estimation, fancy, impression, notion, plan, thought, suggestion, 2. impression (враження); synonyms (n) feeling, idea, imprint, depression, image, mark, dent, appearance, effect, feel, impress, influence, printing, copy, impact, 3. apprehension; synonyms (n) alarm, comprehension, dread, arrest, capture, foreboding, misgiving, trepidation, understanding, appreciation, anticipation, agitation, (adj) anxiety, care, (v) doubt; antonyms (n) reassurance, release, confidence, calmness, 4. notion; synonyms (n) caprice, imagination, guess, hunch, conjecture, inkling, perception, suspicion, whim, impulse, fantasy, hint, sense, supposition, (v) judgment.
- уявляти 1. fancy; synonyms (v) daydream, imagine, wish, consider, crotchet, envision, (adj) conceive, elaborate, extravagant, (n) desire, caprice, fantasy, dream, conceit, conception; antonyms (adj) plain, unadorned, (n) reality, 2. imagine; synonyms (v) think, believe, conjecture, assume, fancy, guess, devise, fantasize, see, visualize, calculate, image, divine, gather, (conj) suppose.

уявний imaginary; synonyms (adj) fanciful, fictitious, false, ideal, illusory, mythical, unreal, hypothetical, chimerical, fantastic, fictional, notional, visionary, whimsical, delusive; antonyms (adj) real, palpable.

#### Φ

- фабрика 1. factory; synonyms (n) manufactory, mill, plant, business, shop, works, 2. mill; synonyms (n) grind, factory, grinder, machine, engine, gin, notch, implement, instrument, lathe, (v) crush, pulverize, spar, (adi) cent.
- фабрикант 1. maker; synonyms (n) creator, manufacturer, author, architect, builder, inventor, producer, father, designer, poet; antonym (n) destroyer, 2. operator; synonyms (n) driver, hustler, manipulator, agent, doer, speculator, actor, employee, clerk, businessperson, captain, financier, floozie, floozy, hooker, 3. manufacturer; synonyms (n) maker, artificer, shaper, artist.
- ΦΑΕΡΙΚΑΙ[IЯ manufacture; *synonyms* (n) construction, fabrication, formation, production, creation, (v) construct, make, frame, fabricate, produce, build, contrive, invent, form, forge.
- фабрикувати coin; *synonyms* (*n*) cash, money, specie, currency, piece, (*v*) forge, invent, mint, originate, create, strike, cast, devise, fabricate, weave.
- ΦΑБУЛА story; synonyms (n) layer, history, account, narration, narrative, recital, report, tale, fable, falsehood, fib, floor, legend, level, novel; antonym (n) truth.
- фаворит favourite; *synonyms* (*adj*) favored, (*n*) favorite, darling, ducky, pet, dearie, deary, blaze, ingle, fire, fireplace, flame, paramour.
- фаза 1. phase; synonyms (n) aspect, stage, facet, chapter, grade, circumstance, condition, degree, appearance, form, leg, level, period, side, situation, 2. stage; synonyms (n) phase, floor, point, arena, layer, gradation, set, stadium, height, dais, (v) present, order, mount, play, arrange.
- φακεπ torch; synonyms (n) flashlight, brand, light, blowlamp, blowtorch, incendiary, teade, triggerman, (v) hum
- φακc fax; synonyms (n) autotype, (v) facsimile, telefax.
  φακτ fact; synonyms (n) event, incident, detail, deed, particular, truth, actuality, circumstance, experience, occurrence, point, reality, thing, contingency, (v) act; antonyms (n) guesswork, rumor, conjecture, fallacy, falsehood, report.
- факти data; *synonyms* (n) information, facts, details, evidence, fact, figures, file, material, postulate, proof.
- фактичний 1. virtual; synonyms (adj) potential, practical, unreal, implicit, comparative, constructive, fake, imitation, pretend, qualified, quasi, replicated, simulated, basic, energizing; antonym (adj) genuine, 2. actual; synonyms (adj) real, absolute, true, factual, authentic, existent, indisputable, literal, positive, precise, tangible, veritable, very, concrete, (n) accurate; antonyms (adj) false, hypothetical, supposed, 3. factual;

- **synonyms** (*adj*) actual, exact, right, truthful, correct; **antonyms** (*adj*) untrue, legendary.
- фактично 1. virtually; synonyms (adv) almost, literally, most, close, (adj) nearly, near, practically, about, nigh, negatively, 2. actually; synonyms (adv) really, truly, quite, absolutely, presently, correctly, authentically, right, physically, bodily, easily, effectually, indisputably, truthfully, accurately, 3. fairly; synonyms (adv) completely, moderately, somewhat, clean, equitably, fair, justly, passably, pretty, rather, reasonably, enough, middling, relatively, slightly; antonyms (adv) unfairly, extremely, unjustly, 4. practically; synonyms (adv) virtually, much, hardly, usefully, conveniently; antonyms (adv) theoretically, unrealistically.
- фактор 1. factor; synonyms (n) agent, component, broker, divisor, element, ingredient, part, deputy, consideration, feature, parameter, point, delegate, item, (adj) constituent, 2. agency; synonyms (n) bureau, office, authority, commission, expedient, factor, instrument, means, organ, way, efficiency, activity, board, (v) action, act, 3. agent; synonyms (n) agency, medium, mediator, ambassador, attorney, channel, doer, envoy, intermediary, procurator, surrogate, spy, operator, minister, (v) actor.
- **факторія** factory; *synonyms* (n) manufactory, mill, plant, business, shop, works.
- факультативний optional; synonyms (adj) discretionary, arbitrary, voluntary, nonobligatory, unrestricted, additional, supplementary, external, extracurricular, extranural, unnecessary, available, discretional, flexible, noncompulsory; antonyms (adj) obligatory, compulsory, required, essential, necessary, mandatory.
- факультет 1. faculty; *synonyms* (*n*) capacity, aptitude, capability, endowment, bent, facility, power, staff, flair, efficiency, aptness, (*adj*) ability, cleverness, talent, (*v*) gift; *antonym* (*n*) inability, 2. department; *synonyms* (*n*) bureau, compartment, area, agency, class, faculty, section, arm, branch, division, domain, field, line, office, part.
- фальсифікація sophistication; synonyms (n) refinement, sophism, cultivation, elegance, complexity, adulteration, edification, enlightenment, finesse, judgment, style; antonym (n) innocence.
- фальсифікований sophisticated; synonyms (adj) complicated, refined, complex, cultured, experienced, urbane, involved, intricate, advanced, polished, suave, cosmopolitan, knowledgeable, cultivated, elaborate; antonyms (adj) naive, unsophisticated, coarse, inexperienced, insular, simple.
- фальсифікувати doctor; synonyms (n) physician, doc, medico, (v) cure, adulterate, attend, fix, heal, mend, remedy, repair, cook, debase, falsify, leech; antonym (v) break.
- фальшивий 1. false; synonyms (adj) bastard, counterfeit, untrue, deceitful, dishonest, erroneous, artificial, assumed, deceptive, disloyal, faithless, fake, fictitious, sham, ersatz; antonyms (adj) true, real, correct, factual, faithful, genuine, natural, truthful, honest, valid, 2. wrong; synonyms (adj) harm, evil, false, ill, improper, bad, inappropriate, incorrect, abuse, criminal.

- (n) damage, injure, injury, injustice, crime; *antonyms* (*adj*) good, proper, law-abiding, (*adv*) correctly, (v) right, (n) justice.
- фамільярність familiarity; synonyms (n) acquaintance, intimacy, casualness, closeness, experience, conversance, conversancy, knowledge, naturalness, nearness, fellowship, freedom, friendship, privity, understanding; antonyms (n) ignorance, unfamiliarity.
- фантазія 1. fantasy; synonyms (n) dream, fancy, illusion, delusion, mirage, desire, fad, fiction, hallucination, invention, reverie, vision, imaginativeness, deception, (adj) make-believe; antonyms (n) reality, (adj) real, 2. fancy; synonyms (v) daydream, imagine, wish, consider, crotchet, envision, (adj) conceive, elaborate, extravagant, (n) caprice, fantasy, conceit, conception, idea, imagination; antonyms (adj) plain, unadorned, 3. imagination; synonyms (n) imagery, originality, inventiveness, notion, reflection, resource, thought, pretense, resourcefulness.
- фантастичний 1. fantastic; synonyms (adj) bizarre, extraordinary, antic, extravagant, grotesque, marvelous, strange, terrific, wonderful, capricious, chimerical, fabulous, fantastical, (n) fanciful, (v) fancy; antonyms (adj) awful, ordinary, real, 2. fancy; synonyms (v) daydream, imagine, wish, consider, crotchet, envision, (adj) conceive, elaborate, (n) desire, caprice, fantasy, dream, conceit, conception, idea; antonyms (adj) plain, unadorned, (n) reality, 3. romantic; synonyms (adj) sentimental, amorous, impractical, romanticist, unrealistic, utopian, amatory, fictitious, loving, poetic, tender, idealistic, dreamy, (n) visionary, idealist; antonym (n) realist.
- **фарба** paint; synonyms (n) painting, tint, coating, (v) color, dye, daub, coat, decorate, depict, varnish, enamel, apply, lacquer, describe, draw.
- фарбувати paint; *synonyms* (n) painting, tint, coating, (v) color, dye, daub, coat, decorate, depict, varnish, enamel, apply, lacquer, describe, draw.
- **фарватер** channel; synonyms (n) canal, conduit, groove, drain, duct, line, passage, trough, waterway, aqueduct, link, hollow, (r) carry, conduct, convey.
- **фасад** front; synonyms (adj) head, fore, anterior, preceding, (n) countenance, forefront, appearance, disguise, facade, frontage, brow, audacity, (v) face, confront, look; antonyms (n) rear, end, (v) back.
- **фасон 1.** fashion; synonyms (n) cut, mode, craze, fad, manner, method, way, custom, guise, (v) form, construct, contrive, cast, create, make, 2. cut; synonyms (v) carve, chop, clip, abbreviate, abridge, bite, condense, crop, drop, fashion, (n) notch, slice, cutting, nick, blow; antonyms (v) increase, lengthen, (n) addition, extension.
- фатальний 1. weird; synonyms (adj) strange, supernatural, uncanny, unearthly, bizarre, curious, eerie, mysterious, odd, peculiar, unusual, ghostly, quaint, outlandish, abnormal; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, real, typical, 2. fatal; synonyms (adj) calamitous, deadly, destructive, disastrous, lethal, pestilent, dangerous, deathly, fateful, mortal, grave, killing, malignant, noxious, pernicious; antonym (adj) nonfatal.
- φax 1. profession; synonyms (n) confession, declaration, employment, occupation, affirmation, calling, career,

- job, vocation, position, assertion, assurance, avowal, business, craft, **2**. occupation; *synonyms* (*n*) occupancy, place, affair, conquest, function, line, profession, work, concern, activity, avocation, capture, invasion, office, (*v*) trade; *antonym* (*n*) surrender, **3**. trade; *synonyms* (*n*) deal, barter, commerce, swap, switch, clientele, interchange, custom, dealing, market, (*v*) change, exchange, merchandise, bargain, sell; *antonyms* (*n*) purchase, (*adi*) charitable.
- φαχίβετις 1. specialist; synonyms (adj) expert, specialized, specialistic, choice, luxury, premium, (n) authority, professional, connoisseur, craftsman, doctor, epicurean, physician, source, specializer; antonym (n) amateur, 2. expert; synonyms (adj) adept, adroit, dexterous, skillful, able, clever, experienced, accomplished, ace, apt, deft, practiced, veteran, (n) proficient, critic; antonyms (adj) unskilled, inept, inferior, untrained, (n) beginner, 3. master; synonyms (n) captain, instructor, head, boss, leader, gentleman, employer, headmaster, (v) conquer, control, command, defeat, dominate, (adj) chief, original.
- фаховий professional; *synonyms* (*adj*) specialist, occupational, competent, technical, skillful, proficient, skilled, experienced, practiced, (*n*) expert, authority, master, pro, maestro, whiz; *antonyms* (*adj*) unpaid, unprofessional, (*n*) amateur.
- фашизм fascism; *synonyms* (n) dictatorship, despotism, oppression, totalitarianism, tyranny, absolutism, bureaucracy, demagogy, racism, regimentation, repression; *antonym* (n) democracy.
- федеральний federal; *synonyms* (*adj*) national, union, confederate, federative, central, public, united, (*n*) fed.
- федерація 1. confederation; synonyms (n) alliance, coalition, confederacy, association, league, union, federation, combination, fellowship, fusion, affiliation, 2. federation; synonyms (n) confederation, organization, commonwealth, consolidation, society, 3. commonwealth; synonyms (n) commonweal, country, nation, state, province, community, kingdom, land, republic, democracy, 4. alliance; synonyms (n) connection, affinity, alignment, alinement, merger, amalgamation, bond, club, conjunction, cooperation, guild, junction, partnership, party, relation; antonym (n) nonalignment.
- фемініст feminist; synonyms (n) suffragist, libber. феномен 1. phenomenon; synonyms (n) event, appearance, marvel, miracle, incident, development, prodigy, wonder, occurrence, happening, apparition, fact, sight, manifestation, matter, 2. appearance; synonyms (n) air, face, look, semblance, shape, show, advent, form, image, impression, manner, surface, view, appear, arrival; antonyms (n) disappearance, departure, vanishing.
- **феодальний** feudal; *synonyms* (*adj*) feudalistic, medieval.
- φepma farm; synonyms (n) property, grange, dairy, estate, farmhouse, (ν) cultivate, raise, grow, hire, plant, produce, rear, rent.
- **фермер** farmer; *synonyms* (*n*) countryman, agriculturist, rustic, husbandman, granger, sodbuster, yeoman,

- producer, sower, woodcutter, agricultor, agronomist, breeder, cob, feeder.
- фестиваль festival; synonyms (n) feast, carnival, fete, celebration, fair, festivity, holiday, fête, fiesta, gala, jamboree, party, anniversary, (adj) ball.
- **фетр** felt; *synonyms* (*v*) mat, snarl, tangle, braid, entangle, (*adj*) perceived, sensed, conscious.
- фехтувати fence; *synonyms* (n) enclosure, barrier, hurdle, pale, bar, boundary, barricade, fencing, (v) hedge, wall, contend, enclose, parry, quibble, evade.
- **фея** fairy; synonyms (n) elf, faerie, sprite, fag, faggot, fagot, imp, pixie, fay, goblin, nymph, pansy, poof, poove, (adj) faery.
- фіалковий purple; synonyms (adj) mauve, violet, imperial, lilac, regal, royal, embellished, majestic, (n) empurpled, magenta, purpleness, damask, ermine, mantle, (v) empurple.
- **фira** fig; synonyms (n) figure, anatomy, bod, build, chassis, design, digit, foutra, flesh, image, name, number, (adj) pin, straw, rush.
- **фігура** figure; synonyms (n) form, appearance, character, estimate, shape, cost, build, contour, emblem, fashion, (v) design, cast, count, calculate, cipher.
- фізичний 1. physical; synonyms (adj) material, bodily, actual, corporeal, tangible, animal, carnal, concrete, corporal, real, palpable, earthly, manual, sensual, (adv) fleshly; antonyms (adj) spiritual, mental, intangible, 2. bodily; synonyms (adj) physical, personal, somatic, (adv) altogether.
- фізично physically; synonyms (adv) animally, violently, biologically, brutally, definitely, evidently, forcefully, forcibly, geographically, geologically, manually, organically, perceptibly, plainly, purely; antonyms (adv) artificially, automatically.
- **фізіологічний** physiological; *synonym* (*adj*) physiologic.
- фіксувати fix; *synonyms* (v) establish, assign, determine, fasten, settle, define, anchor, adjust, arrange, set, clamp, (n) bind, (adj) ascertain, confirm, attach; antonyms (v) break, unfasten.
- фікція fiction; *synonyms* (n) fabrication, fable, falsehood, invention, lie, story, falsity, figment, novel, romance, sham, deceit, fib, forgery, legend; *antonym* (n) truth.
- φίπιαπ branch; synonyms (n) arm, jump, wing, affiliate, ramus, member, division, limb, offshoot, outgrowth, section, shoot, (v) fork, diverge, divide.
- філолог-класик scholar; synonyms (n) learner, pupil, academic, student, pundit, apprentice, intellectual, brain, disciple, adherent, follower; antonym (n) dilettante.
- φίποcoφ philosopher; synonyms (n) thinker, theorist, pundit, intellectual, mastermind, philosophaster, philosophe, scholar, academic, alchemist, dreamer, guru, mystic.
- φɨποcoφɨπ philosophy; synonyms (n) doctrine, logic, stoicism, theory, attitude, ism, belief, beliefs, reasoning, thinking, view, viewpoint, culture, ethos, hypothesis.
- філософський philosophical; synonyms (adj)
  philosophic, cool, (v) sedate, contemplative, deliberative,
  introspective, meditative, museful, pensive, platonic,
  reflective, thoughtful.

- фільм 1. movie; synonyms (n) film, flick, pic, picture, show, cinema, image, celluloid, characterisation, characterization, delineation, depiction, exposure, icon, ikon, 2. film; synonyms (n) membrane, coating, cloud, coat, covering, haze, layer, movie, skin, fog, crust, flake, casing, (v) mist, photograph.
- фільтр filter; synonyms (n) strainer, (v) percolate, sieve, drip, leak, filtrate, ooze, purify, refine, screen, strain, dribble, drop, clean, permeate; antonym (v) contaminate.
- фільтрувати 1. drain; synonyms (n) ditch, culvert, dike, channel, sewer, (v) deplete, waste, exhaust, bleed, leak, consume, finish, sap, (adj) cloaca, dissipate; antonym (v) bolster, 2. strain; synonyms (n) stress, breed, effort, stretch, exertion, race, (v) filter, screen, sift, tax, endeavor, exert, extend, percolate, pull; antonym (v)
- фінал final; synonyms (adj) conclusive, decisive, definite, extreme, latter, definitive, last, ultimate, irrevocable, decided, concluding, eventual, net, peremptory, firm; antonyms (adj) first, opening, preliminary.
- фінанси finance; synonyms (n) funding, support, credit, backing, investment, (v) back, fund, sponsor, bankroll, underwrite.
- фінансовий 1. financial; *synonyms* (*adj*) fiscal, economic, monetary, pecuniary, commercial, crumenal, business, numismatical, sumptuary, budgeting, numismatic, pocket, 2. fiscal; *synonyms* (*adj*) financial, money, (*n*) treasurer.
- фінансування sponsorship; synonyms (n) sponsor, patronage, backing, auspices, sponsion, support, endorsement, assistance, benefaction, business, cosponsor, devotion, economics, encouragement, help.
- фінансувати 1. finance; *synonyms* (*n*) funding, support, credit, backing, investment, (*v*) back, fund, sponsor, bankroll, underwrite, 2. fund; *synonyms* (*n*) stock, store, capital, bank, reserve, savings, supply, cache, endowment, accumulation, money, (*v*) hoard, finance, accumulate, subsidize.
- фініш finish; synonyms (v) end, complete, achieve, execute, accomplish, cease, determine, discontinue, consume, do, (n) close, consummate, conclusion, death, conclude; antonyms (v) start, begin, continue, (n) beginning.
- фірма 1. firm; synonyms (n) company, (adj) constant, hard, stable, close, compact, determined, fixed, resolute, solid, steadfast, steady, strong, decisive, (v) faithful; antonyms (adj) irresolute, soft, weak, hesitant, limp, liquid, soggy, 2. concern; synonyms (n) business, affair, regard, attention, anxiety, bother, matter, apprehension, burden, disquiet, (v) worry, affect, care, interest, trouble; antonym (v) unconcern.
- фіскальний fiscal; synonyms (adj) financial, monetary, pecuniary, crumenal, economic, numismatical, sumptuary, commercial, money, numismatic, pocket, (n) treasurer.
- фішка counter; synonyms (n) buffet, bench, reverse, (v) reply, contradict, resist, answer, react, respond, retort, thwart, (adj) converse, antagonistic, contrary, opposite.
- флагшток staff; synonyms (n) cane, club, post, employees, faculty, personnel, rod, mace, baton, brace, stave, court, (v) crutch, prop, stick.

- флакон bottle (пляшка); *synonyms* (n) container, flask, jug, jar, pot, carboy, gourd, (v) preserve, can.
- флора flora; *synonyms* (*n*) vegetation, plant, plants, verdure, foliage, undergrowth, works.
- Φποτ 1. fleet; synonyms (n) armada, float, marine, (adj) swift, fast, expeditious, agile, quick, brisk, rapid, speedy, hasty, (v) flit, fly, hurry, 2. marine; synonyms (adj) maritime, nautical, saltwater, sea, aquatic, (n) navy, bluejacket, galiongee, galionji, leatherneck, 3. navy; synonyms (n) fleet, flotilla, blue, army, military, services, convoy, (adj) azure, cobalt, cerulean, indigo, sapphire.
- флотилія 1. fleet; *synonyms* (n) armada, float, marine, (adj) swift, fast, expeditious, agile, quick, brisk, rapid, speedy, hasty, (v) flit, fly, hurry, 2. navy; *synonyms* (n) fleet, flotilla, blue, army, military, services, convoy, (adj) azure, cobalt, cerulean, indigo, sapphire.
- **флотський** naval; *synonyms* (*adj*) marine, nautical, maritime, (*v*) seafaring.
- Ф.Пюїд fluid; synonyms (n) juice, liquor, (adj) liquid, flowing, unsettled, changeable, smooth, fluent, mobile, runny, juicy, uncertain, unstable, variable, watery; antonym (n) solid.
- ФЛЯГА canteen; *synonyms* (*n*) flask, bottle, estaminet, posada, cafeteria, hall, amphora, bar, barrel, butt, caldron, carboy, cask, container, crock.
- **φοκyc** focus; *synonyms* (n) centering, core, nidus, nucleus, point, target, heart, (ν) center, concentrate, converge, aim, centre, direct, focalize, centralize.
- фокусний focal; *synonyms* (*adj*) central, pivotal, axial, azygous, chief, core, critical, crucial, essential, foremost, fundamental, imperative, inner, key, main.
- **ΦΟΚΥCYBATH** focus; *synonyms* (n) centering, core, nidus, nucleus, point, target, heart, (ν) center, concentrate, converge, aim, centre, direct, focalize, centralize.
- фон background; synonyms (n) backdrop, groundwork, setting, basis, context, education, environment, scene, backcloth, panorama, atmosphere, experience, ground, information, preparation.
- фонд 1. fund; synonyms (n) stock, store, capital, bank, reserve, savings, supply, cache, endowment, (v) hoard, bankroll, finance, accumulate, back, sponsor, 2. chest; synonyms (n) bosom, bust, box, bureau, case, casket, dresser, chamber, crate, thorax, treasury, trunk, 3. stock; synonyms (n) breed, lineage, goods, ancestry, descent, family, origin, race, backlog, birth, commodity, extraction, kind, (adj) regular, (v) handle.
- **фонтан** fountain; *synonyms* (*n*) fount, font, jet, source, origin, well, derivation, root, spout, squirt, wellspring, (*ν*) spring, flow.
- **форма 1.** form; *synonyms* (n) figure, design, arrange, ceremony, shape, class, conformation, (v) cast, make, fashion, build, constitute, establish, carve, construct, **2**. shape; *synonyms* (n) mold, pattern, condition, configuration, frame, outline, (v) form, model, mould, determine, adjust, fit, influence, regulate, knead, **3**. mode; *synonyms* (n) means, manner, method, way, custom, guise, style, wise, appearance, approach, fad, modality, process, rage, system, **4**. making; *synonyms*

- (n) creation, construction, fabrication, production, manufacture, devising, fashioning; **antonym** (n) downfall
- формальний 1. formal; synonyms (adj) conventional, ceremonious, distant, ceremonial, courtly, elegant, official, prim, solemn, stately, cold, nominal, pedantic, precise, proper; antonyms (adj) informal, relaxed, unceremonious, 2. technical; synonyms (adj) technological, industrial, shipshape, technic, complex, mysterious, obscure, perplexing, profound, puzzling, rarefied, technicological, mechanical, scholarly, abstruse.
- **формат** format; synonyms (n) form, size, formatting, shape, organization, structure, template, mold, construction, system, (v) set, arrange, coif, coiffe, coiffure
- **φορматувати** format; *synonyms* (n) form, size, formatting, shape, organization, structure, template, mold, construction, system, (ν) set, arrange, coif, coiffe, coiffure.
- формений uniform; synonyms (adj) regular, even, constant, steady, equal, consistent, same, equable, homogenous, invariable, level, unchanging, fixed, (n) livery, dress; antonyms (adj) varied, assorted, inconsistent, unequal.
- формування 1. formation; synonyms (n) constitution, creation, establishment, construction, genesis, arrangement, composition, organization, configuration, conformation, generation, production, architecture, erection, (v) fabrication; antonym (n) destruction, 2. organization; synonyms (n) order, administration, formation, association, institution, structure, system, form, business, company, concern, enterprise, fabric, firm, foundation.
- φορмувати 1. form; synonyms (n) figure, design, arrange, ceremony, shape, class, conformation, (v) cast, make, fashion, build, constitute, establish, carve, construct, 2. mould; synonyms (n) mildew, form, molding, moulding, stamp, modeling, casting, set, fit, (v) mold, model, frame, forge, knead, work.
- формула formula; *synonyms* (*n*) form, law, convention, expression, formality, method, principle, rule, canon, fashion, figure, formulary, pattern, prescription, procedure.
- формулювання formulation; synonyms (n) expression, formula, preparation, conceptualisation, conceptualization, creation, organization, aspect, conceptuality, construction, draft, establishment, face, production, grooming.
- формулювати word; synonyms (n) promise, news, tidings, advice, expression, intelligence, parole, password, report, statement, term, vocable, (v) formulate, phrase, put.
- форсунка jet; *synonyms* (n) squirt, fountain, flow, spout, spray, airplane, current, outpouring, (v) gush, spurt, fly, pour, flood, emit, (adj) raven.
- φορτ fort; synonyms (n) castle, citadel, fortress, bastion, defense, fortification, stronghold, bulwark, garrison, refuge, (ν) fortify, sconce.
- фортепіано piano; synonyms (n) pianoforte, pianissimo, (adj) soft, gentle, cushy, delicate, easy, faint, indulgent,

- lax, lenient, nonalcoholic, (adv) gently, lightly, softly; antonym (adv) forte.
- фортеця castle; *synonyms* (*n*) rook, citadel, fortification, fortress, castling, fort, keep, mansion, palace, stronghold, tower, house, chateau, court, (*v*) donjon.
- фортуна fortune; *synonyms* (*n*) chance, destiny, estate, fate, fluke, accident, luck, means, abundance, assets, doom, lot, riches, wealth, blessing.
- φοργм forum; synonyms (n) agora, assembly, court, pulpit, square, ambo, amphitheater, symposium, platform, rostrum, state, conference, assemblage, seminar, auditorium.
- **φοτογραφ** photographer; *synonyms* (n) photographist, press.
- фотографічний photographic; *synonyms* (*adj*) graphic, pictorial, realistic, picturesque, tithonographic, cinematic, filmic, minute, natural, precise, visual, vivid.
- фотографія 1. picture (картина); synonyms (n) photograph, effigy, paint, drawing, likeness, depiction, description, (v) image, describe, draw, depict, fancy, imagine, copy, envision, 2. photograph; synonyms (n) photo, picture, portrait, print, pic, exposure, heliograph, photocopy, reproduction, (v) film, shoot, snap, flick, 3. photography; synonyms (n) cinematography, heliography, photogeny, shooting, 4. photo.
- фотографувати 1. photograph; synonyms (n) image, photo, picture, likeness, portrait, print, copy, pic, exposure, heliograph, photocopy, (v) film, shoot, snap, flick, 2. picture (картина); synonyms (n) photograph, effigy, paint, drawing, depiction, description, icon, illustration, (v) describe, draw, depict, fancy, imagine, envision, figure, 3. photo.
- φοτο3ΗίΜοκ still; synonyms (adv) however, but, nevertheless, (adj) calm, pacify, peaceful, silence, quiescent, serene, silent, (n) hush, (v) quiet, assuage, compose, lull; antonyms (adj) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, (n) noisy.
- **фрагмент** fragment; *synonyms* (n) fraction, crumb, morsel, part, division, grain, piece, portion, (ν) bit, chip, scrap, shiver, splinter, break, crumble.
- φpa3a phrase; synonyms (n) expression, idiom, word, diction, locution, passage, parlance, (ν) express, formulate, couch, articulate, put, enunciate.
- фракційність faction; *synonyms* (n) cabal, crew, sect, band, dissension, division, feud, group, junto, party, set, team, conflict, crowd, part.
- фракція faction; *synonyms* (n) cabal, crew, sect, band, dissension, division, feud, group, junto, party, set, team, conflict, crowd, part.
- Франкувати frank; synonyms (adj) candid, blunt, direct, downright, honest, sincere, fair, forthright, hearty, open, plain, straightforward, clear, artless, bluff; antonyms (adj) dishonest, guarded, devious.
- **фрахт** freight; synonyms (n) cargo, load, burden, lading, consignment, freightage, shipment, goods, loading, merchandise, payload, weight, (v) carry, ship, lade.
- фрахтувати charter; *synonyms* (*n*) hire, permit, authority, code, law, license, constitution, contract, franchise, (*v*) let, rent, engage, lease, take, get.

  Фрезерувальник miller; *synonym* (*n*) muller.

- **фронт** front; *synonyms* (adj) head, fore, anterior, preceding, (n) countenance, forefront, appearance, disguise, facade, frontage, brow, audacity, (v) face, confront, look; *antonyms* (n) rear, end, (v) back.
- **ΦΡУΚΤ** fruit; *synonyms* (n) effect, crop, outgrowth, product, consequence, issue, produce, production, yield, development, (v) result, return, building, edifice, erection
- ΦΡΥΚΤΙ fruit; synonyms (n) effect, crop, outgrowth, product, consequence, issue, produce, production, yield, development, (v) result, return, building, edifice, erection.
- фундамент 1. foundation; *synonyms* (*n*) base, basis, bottom, creation, establishment, foot, institution, principle, cause, cornerstone, footing, fundamental, origin, support, nucleus; *antonym* (*n*) top, **2**. basement; *synonyms* (*n*) cellar, vault, kitchen, offices, pantry, scullery, catacomb, floor, sepulcher, stomach, tomb, **3**. base; *synonyms* (*n*) foundation, leg, (*adj*) abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, infamous, (*v*) ground, found; *antonyms* (*n*) summit, (*adj*) noble.
- фундатор promoter; *synonyms* (n) backer, advocate, booster, sponsor, patron, forwarder, friend, proponent, showman, supporter, champion, impresario, plugger, (v) artist, projector.
- функціональний functional; synonyms (adj) practical, effective, handy, operational, operative, working, serviceable, official, operable, running, useful; antonyms (adj) nonfunctional, useless.
- функціонування operation; *synonyms* (n) execution, movement, act, agency, effect, business, management, action, function, functioning, performance, running, mission, task, job.
- **φγηκαιόηγβατυ** function; *synonyms* (n) position, office, place, role, service, work, agency, application, duty, employment, (ν) act, exercise, run, serve, go.
- **ΦΥΗΚЦΙЯ 1.** function; *synonyms* (n) position, office, place, role, service, work, agency, application, duty, employment, (ν) act, exercise, run, serve, go, **2**. office; *synonyms* (n) charge, function, commission, appointment, division, authority, berth, bureau, job, part, post, engagement, location, establishment, business.
- **ΦyHT** pound; *synonyms* (ν) beat, pen, bang, crush, flap, grind, hammer, maul, palpitate, thump, mash, buffet, grate, baste, bruise.
- ΦΥΡΓΟΗ 1. Van; synonyms (n) caravan, vehicle, front, truck, vanguard, carriage, car, bus, conveyance, head, (v) automobile, train, 2. caravan; synonyms (n) van, column, expedition, journey, parade, party, camels, campers, gearing, gears, geartrain, (v) procession, cortege, file, cavalcade.
- **ΦУΤ** foot (Hora); *synonyms* (n) bottom, base, feet, foundation, basis, footing, measure, paw, pes, bed, butt, floor, (v) hoof, pay, hand; *antonym* (n) top.
- футбол 1. football; synonyms (n) soccer, hockey, note, baseball, basketball, footie, 2. soccer; synonyms (n) football, ball, gridiron.
- **футбольний** football; *synonyms* (n) soccer, hockey, note, baseball, basketball, footie.

футляр 1. case; *synonyms* (*n*) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, (*adj*) patient, 2. cover; *synonyms* (*v*) coat, conceal, top, bury, cloak, (*n*) blind, blanket, screen, binding, camouflage, cap, covering, lid, mask, shield, *antonyms* (*v*) reveal, expose, uncover.

## X

- xa3qiih 1. boss; synonyms (n) chief, governor, head, overseer, superior, ruler, administrator, captain, director, executive, foreman, leader, (v) administer, govern, direct, 2. host; synonyms (n) crowd, army, flock, horde, mob, legion, troop, emcee, mass, multitude, swarm, throng, heap, array, battalion, 3. manager; synonyms (n) coach, boss, controller, handler, superintendent, supervisor, conductor, entrepreneur, guide, inspector, master, officer, owner, trainer; antonym (n) underling, 4. master; synonyms (n) instructor, gentleman, authority, employer, headmaster, maestro, (v) conquer, control, command, defeat, dominate, (adj) original, ace, expert, proficient, 5. owner; synonyms (n) proprietor, possessor, holder, landholder, landowner, landlord, occupant, host, manager; antonym (n) tenant.
- **хазяйка** mistress; *synonyms* (n) dame, concubine, inamorata, madame, lady, lover, missis, master, owner, schoolmarm, schoolmistress, teacher, woman, impropriator.
- xaŭ let; synonyms (v) allow, hire, admit, lease, leave, permit, charter, have, rent, grant, authorize, cause, countenance, demise, (n) check; antonyms (v) forbid, prevent.
- **халупа** hut; *synonyms* (n) cabin, cot, booth, hovel, cottage, hutch, lodge, shanty, shed, shack, shelter, stall.
- **XaH** khan; *synonyms* (*n*) caravanserai, caravansary, tavern, hotel, caliph, *cz*ar, imaum, kaiser, king, mogul, padishah, shah, sultan, tsar, cazique.
- xaoc chaos; synonyms (n) anarchy, bedlam, clutter, disarray, disorder, jumble, mess, muddle, pandemonium, uproar, mix-up, commotion, confusion, havoc, hubbub; antonyms (n) order, peace, orderliness, regulation.
- **хапати** grab; *synonyms* (*v*) capture, get, snatch, appropriate, clasp, clutch, fascinate, grapple, rob, seize, assume, attract, (*n*) arrest, catch, seizure.
- xapaktep 1. character; synonyms (n) kind, nature, note, part, quality, role, type, brand, constitution, description, disposition, eccentric, spirit, tone, standing, 2. disposition; synonyms (n) bent, attitude, character, disposal, tendency, arrangement, bias, inclination, predisposition, propensity, direction, aptitude, array, distribution, heart, 3. nature; synonyms (n) class, essence, creation, breed, attribute, humor, manner, mettle, temperament, genus, characteristic, complexion, cosmos, habit, personality, 4. kind; synonyms (n) form, helpful, sort, benign, gentle, variety, benevolent, (adj) friendly, generous, good, humane, affectionate, charitable, considerate, genial; antonyms (adj) unkind,

- callous, cruel, hardhearted, mean, merciless, nasty, spiteful, uncaring, upsetting, disagreeable, unfeeling.
- характеризувати 1. distinguish; synonyms (v) discern, discriminate, describe, know, perceive, discover, descry, behold, characterize, classify, detect, difference, differentiate, identify, recognize; antonym (v) confuse, 2. define; synonyms (v) specify, clarify, explain, bound, construe, interpret, limit, name, restrict, circumscribe, outline, delimit, delimitate, delineate, demarcate
- характеристика characteristic; synonyms (adj) distinctive, individual, typical, original, natural, representative, special, (n) badge, attribute, sign, character, feature, peculiar, peculiarity, point; antonyms (adj) uncharacteristic, common.
- характерний 1. distinctive; synonyms (adj) characteristic, distinguishing, excellent, discriminating, individual, special, typical, exceptional, separate, unusual, different, distinct, idiosyncratic, (v) discriminative, dioristic; antonym (adj) common, 2. characteristic; synonyms (adj) distinctive, original, natural, representative, specific, symbolic, (n) badge, attribute, sign, character, feature, peculiar, peculiarity, point, (v) emblematic; antonym (adj) uncharacteristic, 3. individual; synonyms (adj) particular, single, alone, certain, especial, exclusive, singular, sole, solitary, (n) human, creature, fellow, man, mortal, person; antonyms (adj) joint, combined, communal, general, vague, (n) collective, 4. representative; synonyms (adj) model, (n) agent, delegate, deputy, envoy, proxy, ambassador, emissary, instance, member, substitute, congressman, example, exponent, (v) represent.
- **xapTig** charter; *synonyms* (n) hire, permit, authority, code, law, license, constitution, contract, franchise, (ν) let, rent, engage, lease, take, get.
- харчі food (їжа); *synonyms* (*n*) board, edible, fare, aliment, diet, dish, nourishment, sustenance, eating, fodder, meat, nurture, nutriment, nutrition, pabulum.
- харчування 1. food (їжа); synonyms (n) board, edible, fare, aliment, diet, dish, nourishment, sustenance, eating, fodder, meat, nurture, nutriment, nutrition, pabulum, 2. feeding; synonyms (adj) tributary, depascent, (n) feed, alimentation, farming, casting, loading, victuals, 3. diet; synonyms (n) congress, convocation, council, convention, food, assembly, dieting, synod, cockpit, fast; antonyms (v) binge, (adj) fattening, 4. feed; synonyms (v) eat, dine, browse, encourage, nourish, fatten, consume, feast, fertilize, foster, grub, nurse, support, (n) provender, meal; antonym (v) starve.
- **харчувати** feed; *synonyms* (*v*) eat, dine, nurture, browse, board, diet, encourage, nourish, fatten, consume, feast, (*n*) aliment, food, provender, fare; *antonym* (*v*) starve.
- xata 1. house; synonyms (n) family, home, dwelling, firm, abode, domicile, building, edifice, habitation, housing, establishment, structure, ancestry, (v) accommodate, lodge, 2. hut; synonyms (n) cabin, cot, booth, hovel, cottage, hutch, shanty, shed, shack, shelter, stall.
- **хатина 1**. cabin; *synonyms* (*n*) booth, hut, chamber, cot, lodge, room, shed, stall, apartment, **2**. hut; *synonyms* (*n*) cabin, hovel, cottage, hutch, shanty, shack, shelter.

- **хвалити** praise; *synonyms* (n) compliment, acclaim, applause, commendation, glory, kudos, admiration, (v) applaud, approve, commend, extol, honor, flatter, celebrate, glorify; *antonyms* (n) criticism, disparagement, (v) criticize, belittle, disparage, rebuke, reprimand, reproach, scold, chastise, denigrate, sully.
- **ХВалько** hector; *synonyms* (v) browbeat, bluster, bullyrag, swagger, ballyrag, (n) bully, (adj) domineer, dictate
- **хвастощі** blow (дути); *synonyms* (*n*) bang, beat, blast, knock, shock, wallop, gust, hit, jolt, (*v*) puff, bloom, blossom, pant, play, (*adj*) gasp; *antonyms* (*v*) calm, save.
- XBATKA grip; synonyms (n) clasp, clutch, handle, bag, clench, clinch, clutches, (v) grasp, hold, catch, cling, apprehend, embrace, fascinate, grab; antonyms (v) bore, release.
- **хвилина 1**. minute; *synonyms* (n) instant, flash, jiffy, note, memorandum, moment, second, (adj) little, delicate, microscopic, atomic, careful, circumstantial, diminutive, elaborate; antonyms (adj) enormous, huge, big, gigantic, **2**. moment; synonyms (n) importance, consequence, minute, import, bit, time, weight, hour, matter, juncture, magnitude, occasion, point, significance, trice.
- **хвилювання 1**. disturbance; *synonyms* (*n*) agitation, commotion, disorder, turmoil, brawl, derangement, dislocation, disruption, tumult, upset, din, affray, annoyance, bother, (*adj*) trouble, **2**. unrest; *synonyms* (*n*) disquiet, ferment, fermentation, revolution, turbulence, excitement, chaos, disturbance, restlessness, strife; *antonyms* (*n*) calm, rest.
- хвилювати 1. wave; synonyms (n) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (v) brandish, flap, flutter, curl, flourish, swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon, 2. affect; synonyms (v) touch, move, act, fake, feign, impress, pretend, strike, concern, dispose, dissemble, hit, influence, involve, lead, 3. disturb; synonyms (v) agitate, disconcert, disorder, disquiet, distract, distress, perturb, trouble, annoy, bother, commove, derange, disarrange, discompose, disrupt; antonyms (v) arrange, calm, please, smooth, soothe, 4. stir; synonyms (v) arouse, budge, rouse, affect, excite, inspire, go, cause, foment, (n) movement, commotion, disturbance, excitement, agitation, (adj) bustle.
- **хвилюватися 1**. wave; *synonyms* (*n*) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (*v*) brandish, flap, flutter, curl, flourish, swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon, **2**. create; *synonyms* (*v*) cause, construct, make, constitute, produce, beget, breed, build, compose, do, establish, form, generate, institute, start; *antonyms* (*v*) destroy, terminate.
- хвилюючий 1. emotional; synonyms (adj) dramatic, affecting, affective, effusive, moving, passionate, poignant, sensational, sensitive, warm, affectional, excited, fervent, mawkish, (v) emotive; antonyms (adj) impassive, unemotional, unflappable, 2. dramatic; synonyms (adj) spectacular, theatrical, impressive, scenic, exciting, striking, sudden, thespian; antonyms (adj) gradual, undramatic.
- **хвиля 1.** wave; *synonyms* (n) billow, gesture, motion, sign, surge, (v) brandish, flap, flutter, curl, flourish,

- swell, swing, undulate, beat, beckon, **2**. sea (Mope); *synonyms* (*n*) ocean, water, waves, (*adj*) marine, maritime, array, nautical, seagoing, army.
- **ΧΒΙΡΤΚΆ** Wicket; synonyms (n) gate, lattice, grille, hoop, ostiary, porch, portal, postern, grill, basket, fretwork, grillwork, latticework, ring.
- XBICT tail; synonyms (n) rear, shadow, behind, butt, posterior, rump, stub, (v) follow, pursue, track, trail, chase, dog, tag, (adi) back; antonyms (v) head, front.
- хворий 1. ill; synonyms (adj) bad, sick, ailing, diseased, unhealthy, adverse, (adv) badly, poorly, sickly, (n) evil, harm, complaint, hurt, ailment, mischief; antonyms (adj) healthy, (adv) well, 2. sick; synonyms (adj) ill, queasy, indisposed, weary, invalid, morbid, nauseous, poor, crazy, disgusted, nauseated, upset, (v) unwell, puke, vomit, 3. sore; synonyms (adj) painful, sensitive, angry, raw, indignant, aching, huffy, (n) injury, boil, cut, lesion, canker, abscess, (v) acute, sharp; antonym (adj) painless.
- xBopo6a 1. sickness; synonyms (n) illness, indisposition, complaint, malady, qualm, distemper, nausea, disgust, infirmity, affliction, loathing, ill, (v) disease, disorder, ailment, 2. illness; synonyms (n) sickness, attack, pain, bug, trouble, 3. disease; synonyms (n) condition, affection, evil, infection, pestilence, plague, blight, cancer, debility, malignancy, (v) contaminate, defile, infect, 4. affection; synonyms (n) affect, charity, attachment, fondness, affectionateness, feeling, heart, kindness, liking, love, tenderness, admiration, care, devotion, (v) regard; antonym (n) hatred, 5. sick; synonyms (adj) queasy, ailing, indisposed, poorly, weary, invalid, diseased, morbid, sickly, nauseous, poor, crazy, disgusted, nauseated, (v) unwell; antonyms (adj) well, healthy.
- хворобливий frail; synonyms (adj) brittle, fragile, delicate, flimsy, breakable, light, rickety, slender, slim, dainty, decrepit, fine, (v) weak, feeble, faint; antonyms (adj) strong, substantial, robust.
- **xepec** sherry; *synonyms* (*v*) highball, peg, rum, rye, schnapps, sling, usquebaugh, whisky, xeres.
- хибний 1. vicious; synonyms (adj) evil, bad, depraved, malicious, brutal, cruel, malevolent, venomous, wicked, immoral, nasty, barbarous, corrupt, poisonous, savage; antonyms (adj) kind, gentle, friendly, 2. faulty; synonyms (adj) erroneous, deficient, defective, false, vicious, broken, inaccurate, incorrect, wrong, damaged, imperfect, poor, amiss, tainted, blamable; antonyms (adj) correct, perfect, flawless, 3. false; synonyms (adj) bastard, counterfeit, untrue, deceitful, dishonest, artificial, assumed, deceptive, disloyal, faithless, fake, fictitious, sham, ersatz, apocryphal; antonyms (adj) true, real, factual, faithful, genuine, natural, truthful, honest, valid
- хижак predator; synonyms (n) marauder, vulture, piranha, destroyer, scavenger.
- **хилитися** slope; *synonyms* (n) incline, declivity, dip, decline, descent, fall, grade, gradient, hill, inclination, (v) pitch, slant, cant, lean, bank.
- **химерний** 1. bizarre; *synonyms* (*adj*) eccentric, fanciful, grotesque, singular, curious, extraordinary, fantastic, freakish, odd, outlandish, outre, quaint, queer, strange, unusual; *antonyms* (*adj*) normal, ordinary, 2. baroque;

- *synonyms* (n) baroqueness, (adj) ornate, elaborate, rococo, fancy, barocco, churrigueresco, churrigueresque, flamboyant, florid, flowery, gaudy, intricate, overornamented, splendid; antonym (adj) plain.
- **XUTATU** rock; *synonyms* (*n*) boulder, calculus, pillar, (*v*) jar, sway, cradle, jolt, shake, toss, waver, quake, pitch, reel, (*adj*) pebble, stone.
- **XHTKHĬ** Crazy; synonyms (adj) deranged, mad, madcap, wild, absurd, brainsick, cracked, crazed, demented, eccentric, foolish, ludicrous, preposterous, silly, wacky; antonyms (adj) sane, sensible.
- **хитрий 1.** tricky; *synonyms* (*adj*) crafty, cunning, artful, deceitful, sly, delicate, difficult, foxy, shifty, slippery, wily, complicated, designing, dodgy, guileful; *antonyms* (*adj*) easy, straightforward, honest, **2.** arch; *synonyms* (*n*) arc, acute, bend, curvature, dome, archway, (*v*) curve, bow, vault, (*adj*) shrewd, round, consummate, astute, chief, head; *antonym* (*v*) straightness.
- **XHTPICTLE** 1. craft; *synonyms* (n) boat, ability, art, cunning, trade, artfulness, guile, fraud, shift, artifice, business, deceit, job, occupation, profession, 2. trick; *synonyms* (n) deception, joke, prank, device, dupe, stratagem, knack, (v) swindle, cheat, deceive, sham, con, mislead, beguile, bamboozle.
- **хід 1**. passage; *synonyms* (n) aisle, course, channel, corridor, gangway, hall, journey, entry, way, entrance, lobby, duct, opening, avenue, citation, 2. course; synonyms (n) stream, flow, bearing, career, current, path, road, route, track, circuit, class, method, (v) run, chase, pour, 3. process; synonyms (n) operation, proceeding, procedure, act, formula, outgrowth, means, mode, practice, (v) action, function, refine, litigate, treat, work, 4. run; synonyms (v) rule, dash, gush, race, conduct, direct, go, hasten, hurry, operate, progress, (n) pass, campaign, drive, range, 5. progress; synonyms (n) headway, improvement, furtherance, betterment, gain, advancement, development, growth, increase, movement, (v) advance, proceed, continue, develop, move; *antonyms* (n) decline, deterioration, (v) regress, **6**. march (березень); synonyms (n) walk, hike, parade, demonstration, ramble, trek, protest, (v) tramp, border, pace, process, stride, stroll, demo, demonstrate, 7. movement; synonyms (n) motion, activity, crusade, cause, passage, drift, inclination, effort, evolution, front, migration, play, tendency, travel, gesture, 8. motion; synonyms (n) wave, exercise, gesticulation, application, question, resolution, swing, motility, proposition, suggestion, heave, (v) sign, beckon, gesticulate, signal, 9. running; synonyms (v) active, (adj) flowing, operative, continual, working, functioning, moving, consecutive, live, fluid, cursive, (n) administration. performance, handling, charge, 10. move; synonyms (v) affect, carry, excite, impel, instigate, maneuver. touch, bear, disturb, actuate, agitate, arouse, convey, (n) transfer, change; antonym (v) stay.
- ximik chemist; synonyms (n) apothecary, pharmacist, druggist, pharmaceutist, pharmacy, pharmacopolist, alchemist, chemic, dispensatory, laborant, analyst.
- **хімічний** chemical; *synonyms* (*adj*) chemic, alchemical, alkaline, plastic, spagyrical, actinic, analytical, ersatz,

- synthesized, synthetic, synthetical, (n) ammunition, reagent.
- **ximis** chemistry; *synonyms* (*n*) alchemy, attraction, charm, organization, (*adj*) acyclic, botany.
- **xipypr** surgeon; *synonyms* (n) doctor, physician, sawbones, chirurgeon.
- **хірургічний** surgical; *synonyms* (*adj*) operative, chirurgical, effective, functional, key.
- **xipypris** surgery; *synonyms* (*n*) operation, chirurgery, act, functioning, or, performance, procedure, process, treatment
- **XJUCT** Whip; *synonyms* (n) coachman, (v) scourge, lash, flog, strap, beat, flagellate, goad, punish, stir, thrash, trounce, wallop, chastise, cane.
- x.ni6 1. bread; synonyms (n) living, livelihood, cash, maintenance, currency, dough, food, kale, loot, money, pelf, sustenance, 2. corn; synonyms (n) maize, clavus, cereals, callus, wheat, grain, commonplace, (v) feed, keep.
- **хліборобство** farming; *synonyms* (*n*) agriculture, cultivation, husbandry, culture, tillage, land.
- X.JiB 1. barn; synonyms (n) shed, store, stable, bawn, auditorium, bacilli, bacillus, lathe, bel, boron, shelter, (adj) foul, unclean, 2. stall; synonyms (n) booth, bench, barn, carrel, compartment, delay, stand, cabin, hut, kiosk, stalling, cubicle, chair, (v) procrastinate, wait.
- хлопець 1. boy; synonyms (n) lad, fellow, kid, male, man, minor, servant, son, youngster, youth, boots, 2. youngster; synonyms (n) boy, child, juvenile, urchin, toddler, adolescent, baby, nipper, shaver, teen, teenager, girl, lass; antonym (n) adult, 3. jack; synonyms (n) knave, flag, jackass, mariner, ace, burgee, jackfruit, 4. fellow; synonyms (adj) comrade, (n) companion, associate, equal, brother, chap, colleague, compeer, peer, buddy, dude, dog, counterpart, escort, (v) concomitant, 5. chap; synonyms (n) person, blighter, crack, cranny, crevice, guy, beau, scissure, chink, cleft, cuss, fella, feller, fissure, gent; antonym (n) woman, 6. lad; synonyms (n) cub, laddie, schoolboy, stripling.
- хлопчик 1. youngster; synonyms (n) boy, lad, child, juvenile, kid, urchin, toddler, adolescent, youth, baby, nipper, shaver, teen, teenager, girl; antonym (n) adult, 2. boy (хлопець); synonyms (n) fellow, male, man, minor, servant, son, youngster, boots.
- **xmapa** cloud; *synonyms* (n) mist, blur, haze, steam, (v) fog, becloud, obscure, befog, blacken, eclipse, overshadow, shadow, taint, hide, (adj) swarm; antonym (v) sharpen.
- xo66i hobby; synonyms (n) fad, amusement, avocation, cockhorse, interest, pastime, pursuit, entertainment, diversion, hobbyhorse, recreation, sideline, activity.
- xo6i hobby; synonyms (n) fad, amusement, avocation, cockhorse, interest, pastime, pursuit, entertainment, diversion, hobbyhorse, recreation, sideline, activity.
- xo6ot trunk; synonyms (n) stem, boot, torso, body, bole, proboscis, snout, stalk, box, stock, case, house, luggage, nose. stiros.
- **XOBATU 1.** hide; *synonyms* (v) conceal, disguise, obscure, bury, cloak, mask, shelter, (n) cover, fur, coat, fell, skin, veil, cloud, (adj) darken; *antonyms* (v) reveal, show, expose, express, 2. conceal; *synonyms* (v) hide, screen,

- shield, smother, suppress, ensconce, muffle, cache, camouflage, dissemble, harbor, secrete, withhold, blanket, (n) shadow; *antonyms* (v) divulge, clarify, uncover
- **ховатися** hide; *synonyms* (*v*) conceal, disguise, obscure, bury, cloak, mask, shelter, (*n*) cover, fur, coat, fell, skin, veil, cloud, (*adj*) darken; *antonyms* (*v*) reveal, show, expose, express.
- хода 1. pace; synonyms (n) walk, rate, footstep, rapidity, speed, tempo, tread, celerity, fastness, run, beat, cadence, (v) step, gait, stride; antonym (n) slowness, 2. walking; synonyms (v) careless, current, excelling, passant, surpassing, (adj) moving, active, ambulant, ambulative, gradient, wayfaring, (n) traveling, paseo, pass, (adv) afoot, 3. walk (ходити); synonyms (v) ramble, course, hike, move, roam, travel, trek, go, promenade, track, (n) pace, path, saunter, stroll, excursion, 4. step; synonyms (n) degree, measure, stage, gradation, level, rank, act, footprint, advance, phase, procedure, process, carriage, footfall, (v) proceeding.
- **ходак** walker; *synonyms* (*n*) pedestrian, footer, hiker, rambler, stroller, backpacker, perambulator.
- ходити 1. walk; synonyms (v) ramble, course, hike, move, roam, travel, trek, go, (n) step, gait, pace, path, saunter, stroll, excursion, 2. go; synonyms (v) come, elapse, pass, break, crack, depart, disappear, drive, run, fall, extend, function, operate, (n) fare, (adj) follow, 3. run; synonyms (v) flow, rule, dash, gush, race, career, conduct, direct, hasten, hurry, pour, progress, (n) campaign, range, (adj) stream.
- ходьба 1. walk (ходити); synonyms (v) ramble, course, hike, move, roam, travel, trek, go, (n) step, gait, pace, path, saunter, stroll, excursion, 2. going; synonyms (n) departure, exit, leaving, parting, disappearance, expiration, action, passing, (adj) running, working.
- **холод 1.** cold; *synonyms* (*adj*) chilly, frigid, aloof, callous, distant, icy, indifferent, apathetic, bleak, cool, dead, dull, freezing, (n) chilliness, chill; *antonyms* (*adj*) warm, friendly, hot, burning, prepared, affectionate, loving, soporific, (n) heat, warmth, **2.** chill; *synonyms* (n) coolness, gelidity, iciness, quiver, shiver, shivering, (*adj*) cold, frosty, depressing, raw, (v) freeze, dispirit, congeal, damp, dampen.
- **холодильник** safe; *synonyms* (*adj*) secure, reliable, cautious, dependable, good, harmless, innocuous, sound, correct, innocent, inoffensive, certain, stable, (*n*) closet, coffer; *antonyms* (*adj*) dangerous, unsafe, hurt, risky, unprotected, vulnerable, harmful, insecure, reckless.
- холодний 1. cold; synonyms (adj) chilly, frigid, aloof, callous, distant, icy, indifferent, apathetic, bleak, cool, dead, dull, freezing, (n) chilliness, chill; antonyms (adj) warm, friendly, hot, burning, prepared, affectionate, loving, soporific, (n) heat, warmth, 2. chill; synonyms (n) coolness, gelidity, iciness, quiver, shiver, shivering, (adj) cold, frosty, depressing, raw, (v) freeze, dispirit, congeal, damp, dampen, 3. icy; synonyms (adj) frozen, glacial, arctic, wintry, gelid, standoffish, hostile, bitter, nippy, slippery, stony, unfriendly, glassy, polar, reserved, 4. bleak; synonyms (adj) austere, bare, barren, dreary, black, desolate, murky, bald, dark, gloomy, grim,

- harsh, inhospitable, severe, stark; *antonyms* (*adj*) cheerful, hopeful, lush, mild, sunny.
- холодно coldly; synonyms (adv) coolly, frigidly, icily, indifferently, distantly, dispassionately, dryly, analytically, callously, cruelly, dourly, gelidly, gloomily, hardheartedly, heartlessly; antonyms (adv) warmly, affectionately.
- **XOMYT** collar; *synonyms* (*n*) arrest, choker, pinch, ruff, chaplet, flange, (*v*) catch, apprehend, capture, clutch, grab, nail, cop, get, grasp.
- xop 1. choir; synonyms (n) quire, chancel, chorister, crypt, nave, transept, vestry, ensemble, clerk, consort, precentor, band, (v) chorus, sing, 2. chorus; synonyms (n) refrain, acclamation, song, tune, (v) choir, chant, (adv) descant, glee, madrigal, catch.
- **хорда** chord; *synonyms* (*n*) cord, harmony, curve, flange, enticement, (*v*) accord, harmonise, harmonize, agree, consort, reconcile, (*adi*) subtense.
- **хоробрий** brave; *synonyms* (*adj*) adventurous, bold, audacious, courageous, endure, fearless, hardy, intrepid, valiant, virile, confident, daring, dauntless, (v) defy, confront; *antonyms* (*adj*) cowardly, frightened, gutless, pathetic, (n) timid.
- **хоробрість** courage; *synonyms* (*n*) bravery, audacity, fortitude, backbone, boldness, gallantry, heroism, mettle, nerve, spirit, valor, chivalry, manhood, courageousness, determination; *antonym* (*n*) cowardice.
- **xopom** chorus; *synonyms* (*n*) ensemble, refrain, acclamation, song, tune, (*v*) choir, chant, (*adv*) descant, glee, madrigal, catch.
- хороший 1. good; synonyms (adj) able, benefit, delicious, right, efficient, capable, excellent, fine, nice, superior, well, advantageous, (n) benign, advantage, gain; antonyms (adj) disobedient, poor, wicked, unpleasant, (n) evil, bad, 2. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, agreeable, correct, decent, delicate, difficult, enjoyable, exact; antonym (adj) horrible.
- **хотіти 1**. want; *synonyms* (v) need, desire, (n) lack, poverty, wish, deficiency, deprivation, famine, absence, dearth, demand, destitution, indigence, necessity, penury; antonyms (v) dislike, hate, 2. will; synonyms (v) bequeath, devise, leave, shall, (n) volition, command, inclination, determination, pleasure, resolve, intent, mind, courage, liking, purpose, **3**. wish; *synonyms* (v) hope, like, aspiration, choose, please, bid, care, prefer, (n) want, longing, aim, ambition, craving, request, (adv) will, 4. desire; synonyms (n) dream, impulse, lust, goal, appetite, greed, hunger, passion, thirst, urge, (v) fancy, aspire, seek, crave, envy; antonyms (n) aversion, reality, 5. please; synonyms (v) delight, gratify, amuse, charm, entertain, oblige, enchant, enrapture, accommodate, divert, gladden, indulge, satisfy, (adj) enjoy, content; antonyms (v) displease, annoy, anger, irritate, distress.
- xou 1. though; synonyms (conj) nevertheless, notwithstanding, still, whereas, while, (adv) even, tho', (adj) although, however, 2. although; synonyms (conj) albeit, (adv) though.
- **x04a** 1. although; *synonyms* (*conj*) albeit, whereas, (*prep*) however, (*adv*) notwithstanding, though, even, 2.

- though; *synonyms* (*conj*) nevertheless, still, while, (*adv*) tho', (*adj*) although.
- xpam 1. temple; synonyms (n) church, tabernacle, shrine, brow, synagogue, forehead, chapel, kirk, meetinghouse, basilica, chantry, conventicle, memorial, oratory, side,
  2. church; synonyms (n) cathedral, temple, denomination, minster, churchdom, cult, sect, communion, creed, faith, hall, persuasion, religion, (adj) pope, gospel.
- **хранитель** treasurer; *synonyms* (n) cashier, banker, financier, fiscal, guardian, keeper, official, revenue, tutor.
- **xpe6et 1.** ridge; *synonyms* (n) crest, ledge, bank, hill, shelf, dune, swelling, peak, projection, ridgepole, wrinkle, button, peg, (v) crease, fold, **2.** spine; *synonyms* (n) backbone, thorn, point, prickle, quill, spike, back, barb, rachis, pricker, ridge, spur, sticker.
- **xpect** cross; *synonyms* (n) crisscross, affliction, (v) intersect, baffle, cover, thwart, (adj) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; *antonyms* (v) uncross, (adj) calm, good-tempered.
- **xpectomatis** reader; *synonyms* (*n*) lecturer, professor, lector, proofreader, reviewer, subscriber, compositor, preacher, printer.
- **християнство** cross; *synonyms* (n) crisscross, affliction, (v) intersect, baffle, cover, thwart, (adj) crabbed, crabby, angry, cantankerous, grouchy, grumpy, traverse, cranky, annoyed; *antonyms* (v) uncross, (adj) calm, good-tempered.
- **хронічний** chronic; *synonyms* (*adj*) confirmed, habitual, inveterate, constant, accustomed, continuous, frequent, persistent, prolonged, regular, repeated, usual, (*v*) permanent; *antonym* (*adj*) temporary.
- **XTO** Who; synonyms (pron) one, (adj) which, what.
- **хто-небудь** somebody; *synonyms* (*pron*) someone, anybody, (*n*) individual, person, personage, creature, man, mortal, body, homo, human, (*adj*) celebrity, hero, lion, notability; *antonym* (*pron*) nobody.
- **хтось 1**. one (один); *synonyms* (*pron*) any, man, (*n*) anybody, single, somebody, person, ace, (*adj*) certain, individual, lone, only, unique, some, singular, (*adv*) once, **2**. someone; *synonyms* (*pron*) anyone, (*n*) human, self, party, one, soul, homo, mortal, **3**. somebody; *synonyms* (*pron*) someone, (*n*) personage, creature, body, notable, (*adj*) celebrity, hero, lion, notability; *antonym* (*pron*) nobody.
- XУДИЙ 1. lean; synonyms (adj) emaciated, gaunt, thin, bony, lank, lanky, (v) incline, bend, list, slant, bow, careen, pitch, (n) tilt, inclination; antonyms (adj) fat, plump, 2. thin; synonyms (adj) flimsy, lean, light, slight, tenuous, fine, rare, slim, sparse, (v) slender, dilute, meager, sheer, subtle, scanty; antonyms (adj) thick, concentrated, chubby, wide, broad, heavy, (v) thicken.
- **худнути** 1. thin; *synonyms* (*adj*) flimsy, gaunt, lean, light, slight, tenuous, emaciated, fine, rare, slim, sparse, (*v*) slender, dilute, meager, sheer; *antonyms* (*adj*) thick, fat, concentrated, chubby, plump, wide, broad, heavy, (*v*) thicken, **2**. reduce; *synonyms* (*v*) lower, pare, abbreviate, curtail, cut, debase, abate, condense, contract, diminish, shorten, concentrate, compress, (*adj*)

- abridge, lessen; *antonyms* (v) increase, bolster, expand, enlarge, exacerbate, intensify.
- худоба 1. cattle; synonyms (n) beast, cows, stock, kine, livestock, oxen, sheep, antelopes, bison, camels, crowd, mob, public, barb, bidet, 2. cow (корова); synonyms (v) bully, intimidate, awe, browbeat, daunt, terrorize, discourage, frighten, overawe, threaten, abash, 3. beast (тварина); synonyms (n) animal, monster, swine, creature, fiend, savage, barbarian, (adj) brute, bear, 4. livestock; synonyms (n) ancestry, blood, bloodline, breed, broth, caudex, descent, fund, gillyflower, gunstock, inventory, line, lineage, horses, neckcloth.
- **художник 1.** artist; synonyms (n) actor, artificer, master, player, musician, performer, artisan, creator, entertainer, maker, architect, stylist, **2.** painter; synonyms (n) artist, limner, cable, catamount, cougar, guy, halser, hawser, line.
- художній artistic; synonyms (adj) esthetic, aesthetic, elegant, ingenious, pleasing, attic, creative, imaginative, inventive, tasteful.
- **хустка** handkerchief; *synonyms* (*n*) hankie, napkin, cravat, hanky, wipe, collar, (*v*) cloth.
- **ΧΥCTOYKA** handkerchief; *synonyms* (n) hankie, napkin, cravat, hanky, wipe, collar, (ν) cloth.
- **хуткий** swift; *synonyms* (*adj*) fast, fleet, quick, rapid, speedy, alert, hasty, nimble, prompt, agile, expeditious, hurried, lively, sudden, abrupt; *antonyms* (*adj*) slow, considered, leisurely.
- **XYTKO 1.** fast; *synonyms* (adj) dissolute, firm, agile, debauched, fixed, hurried, instant, quick, rapid, staunch, brisk, (adv) soon, hard, close, (n) diet; antonyms (adj) sluggish, loose, (adv) slow, slowly, leisurely, (v) gorge, (n) binge, 2. quickly; synonyms (adv) promptly, immediately, directly, early, pronto, nimbly, apace, hastily, rapidly, readily, suddenly, (adj) fast, shortly, forthwith, (n) instantly; antonyms (adv) gradually, permanently.
- **xyrpo 1**. fur; *synonyms* (n) coat, down, pelt, skin, fell, hair, fleece, feathers, fuzz, hide, (v) blanket, flannel, (adj) pile, wool, floss, **2**. fell; *synonyms* (v) chop, cut, drop, floor, ax, level, demolish, destroy, (adj) barbarous, cruel, prostrate, brutal, fierce, savage, murderous.

# П

- **цапеня** kid; *synonyms* (n) baby, child, youngster, infant, juvenile, toddler, tot, babe, (v) joke, jest, banter, chaff, mock, fool, jolly.
- **цар** king (король); *synonyms* (n) emperor, mogul, sovereign, chief, baron, crown, magnate, ruler, tycoon, majesty, rex, monarch, power, ace.
- **царювання** reign; *synonyms* (*n*) dominance, control, dominion, government, administration, kingdom, lead, power, (*v*) rule, command, govern, dominate, predominate, prevail, manage.
- **царювати** reign; *synonyms* (n) dominance, control, dominion, government, administration, kingdom, lead,

- power, (v) rule, command, govern, dominate, predominate, prevail, manage.
- **цвинтар** cemetery; *synonyms* (*n*) graveyard, churchyard, necropolis, charnel, catacomb, crypt, garden, headstone, mortuary, ossuary, polyandrium, sepulcher.
- цвіль must; *synonyms* (*v*) have, need, mold, demand, ought, shall, should, (*n*) essential, necessity, requirement, obligation, necessary, mustiness, requisite, want; *antonym* (*n*) option.
- цвісти flower (квітка); synonyms (n) bouquet, cream, efflorescence, elite, floret, florescence, ornament, nosegay, (v) bloom, blossom, blow, flourish, (adj) prime, floral, fructify.
- цвіт flower (квітка); synonyms (n) bouquet, cream, efflorescence, elite, floret, florescence, ornament, nosegay, (v) bloom, blossom, blow, flourish, (adj) prime, floral, fructify.
- **цегла** brick; *synonyms* (*n*) block, lump, brown, clay, element, red, slab, unit, bone, gem, (*v*) mug, pot, (*adj*) trump, concrete, truepenny.
- **цеглина** brick; *synonyms* (*n*) block, lump, brown, clay, element, red, slab, unit, bone, gem, (*v*) mug, pot, (*adj*) trump, concrete, truepenny.
- **цегляний** brick; *synonyms* (*n*) block, lump, brown, clay, element, red, slab, unit, bone, gem, (*v*) mug, pot, (*adj*) trump, concrete, truepenny.
- **цемент** cement; *synonyms* (*n*) glue, adhesive, gum, paste, size, cementum, (*v*) fasten, fix, join, plaster, stick, adhere, affix, bind, (*adj*) concrete.
- цементувати cement; synonyms (n) glue, adhesive, gum, paste, size, cementum, (v) fasten, fix, join, plaster, stick, adhere, affix, bind, (adj) concrete.
- **цензура** censorship; *synonyms* (*n*) censoring, ban, silence, blackout, control, forbidding, restriction, squashing, suppression, wraps.
- **центр 1**. centre; *synonyms* (*n*) core, middle, heart, midpoint, (*ν*) center, centralize, concentrate, focus, **2**. nucleus; *synonyms* (*n*) kernel, essence, nub, root, basis, embryo, germ, gist, marrow, bud, hub, meat, pivot, cream, egg.
- **центральний** central; *synonyms* (*adj*) basic, capital, cardinal, fundamental, chief, crucial, important, inner, key, main, pivotal, primary, centrical, core, (*n*) umbilical; *antonyms* (*adj*) peripheral, minor, regional, tangential.
- церемонія ceremony; *synonyms* (n) formality, courtesy, celebration, ceremonial, parade, pomp, rite, manners, custom, form, liturgy, magnificence, observance, ritual, service.
- церква 1. church; synonyms (n) cathedral, temple, denomination, meetinghouse, minster, chantry, churchdom, oratory, shrine, cult, sect, communion, creed, faith, (adj) pope, 2. temple (храм); synonyms (n) church, tabernacle, brow, synagogue, forehead, chapel, kirk, basilica, conventicle, memorial, side, sidearm, weathercock.
- **церковний** 1. church; *synonyms* (n) cathedral, temple, denomination, meetinghouse, minster, chantry, churchdom, oratory, shrine, cult, sect, communion, creed, faith, (adj) pope, 2. spiritual; *synonyms* (adj) ghostly, holy, immaterial, religious, incorporeal, pious,

- divine, ethereal, mental, psychic, metaphysical, intellectual, sacred, supernatural, unworldly; *antonyms* (*adj*) physical, worldly, secular, earthly.
- **uex 1.** workshop; *synonyms* (n) shop, factory, studio, workhouse, atelier, works, poorhouse, store, training, committee, induction, meeting, practicum, **2**. department; *synonyms* (n) bureau, compartment, area, agency, class, faculty, section, arm, branch, division, domain, field, line, office, part, **3**. craft; *synonyms* (n) boat, ability, art, cunning, trade, artfulness, guile, fraud, shift, artifice, business, deceit, job, occupation, profession.
- цибулина onion; synonyms (n) caviare, pickle, leek, chive
- цибуля onion; synonyms (n) caviare, pickle, leek, chive. цивілізація civilization; synonyms (n) culture, refinement, civilisation, cultivation, enlightenment, humanity, (adj) civility.
- цивілізований civil; synonyms (adj) polite, courteous, civic, affable, gracious, mannerly, municipal, obliging, public, civilised, attentive, complaisant, considerate, courtly, domestic; antonyms (adj) rude, abrupt.
- цивільний 1. civilian; synonyms (adj) civil, (n) citizen, national, carpetmonger, chamberer, chambermaid, civilist, inhabitant, jurist, layman, legist, resident, voter, advocate, commoner; antonyms (adj) military, (n) serviceman, 2. civic; synonyms (adj) municipal, city, public, urban, communal, local; antonym (adj) private, 3. civil; synonyms (adj) polite, courteous, civic, affable, gracious, mannerly, obliging, civilised, attentive, complaisant, considerate, courtly, domestic, friendly, genteel; antonyms (adj) rude, abrupt.
- **цигарка** cigarette; *synonyms* (*n*) cigaret, fag, butt, arse, ass, backside, behind, bottom, bum, buns, buttocks, can, scroll, derriere, (*adj*) cigar.
- цикл cycle; synonyms (n) bicycle, circle, round, ring, sequence, circuit, period, turn, bout, beat, run, age, (v) bike, motorcycle, wheel.
- циклічний periodic; synonyms (adj) intermittent, regular, periodical, recurrent, frequent, alternate, recurring, routine, spasmodic, alternating, daily, fitful, infrequent, irregular, odd.
- **циліндр** cylinder; *synonyms* (*n*) barrel, roll, pipe, tube, column, container, spool, bottle, cask, reel, bolt, can, filling, flask, (*adj*) cylindroid.
- цинічний cynical; synonyms (adj) sarcastic, distrustful, cynic, satirical, ironic, contumelious, disbelieving, disenchanted, misanthropic, negative, skeptical, sour, suspicious, (v) sardonic.
- циркуляр circular; synonyms (adj) round, annular, circinate, globular, orbicular, rotund, rounded, spherical, (n) advertisement, bill, handbill, brochure, publication, bulletin, flier; antonym (adj) square.
- **ЦИРКУЛЯРНИЙ** circular; *synonyms* (*adj*) round, annular, circinate, globular, orbicular, rotund, rounded, spherical, (*n*) advertisement, bill, handbill, brochure, publication, bulletin, flier; *antonym* (*adj*) square.
- циркуляція circulation; synonyms (n) dissemination, diffusion, distribution, currency, delivery, dispersal, dispersion, gyration, revolution, rotation, round, spread, spreading, turn, airing.

- цистерна tank; *synonyms* (n) cistern, reservoir, container, cooler, belly, boiler, fermentor, jail, stomach, store, tankful, thickener, tub, lake, (v) fake.
- **QUITATE 1.** quote; *synonyms* (*v*) cite, mention, name, exemplify, retell, present, refer, (*n*) adduce, excerpt, extract, quotation, citation, passage, price, (*adj*) illustrate, **2.** quotation; *synonyms* (*n*) reference, quote, example, figure, instance, allusion, credit.
- **ЦИТУВАННЯ** quotation; *synonyms* (n) citation, extract, mention, excerpt, passage, reference, quote, example, price, figure, instance, allusion, credit.
- **цитувати** quote; *synonyms* (*v*) cite, mention, name, exemplify, retell, present, refer, (*n*) adduce, excerpt, extract, quotation, citation, passage, price, (*adj*) illustrate.
- **ΙμΦΡΑ 1.** figure; *synonyms* (n) form, appearance, character, estimate, shape, cost, build, contour, emblem, fashion, (v) design, cast, count, calculate, cipher, **2.** number; *synonyms* (n) amount, score, act, issue, volume, company, digit, (v) aggregate, enumerate, figure, total, come, add, account, compute.
- **цифровий** 1. digital; *synonyms* (*adj*) numeric, (*n*) computer, **2**. numerical; *synonyms* (*adj*) numeral, mathematical, arithmetical, consecutive, algebraic, geometric, statistical, (*n*) identical.
- цікавий 1. interesting; synonyms (adj) entertaining, absorbing, amusing, attractive, charming, engaging, exciting, fascinating, readable, diverting, appealing, engrossing, gripping, captivating, provocative; antonyms (adj) uninteresting, boring, dull, 2. curious; synonyms (adj) abnormal, funny, interested, odd, peculiar, strange, unusual, bizarre, extraordinary, inquiring, inquisitive, quaint, queer, quizzical, remarkable; antonyms (adj) normal, incurious, ordinary.
- цікавити interest; *synonyms* (n) concern, advantage, affair, account, gain, hobby, behalf, eagerness, enthusiasm, sake, (v) engage, care, benefit, appeal, affect; *antonyms* (n) indifference, apathy, (v) bore.
- **цікавитися** wonder; *synonyms* (*v*) admire, query, question, reflect, speculate, (*n*) marvel, prodigy, admiration, amazement, astonishment, miracle, surprise, muse, phenomenon, wonderment.
- **цікавість** curiosity; *synonyms* (*n*) wonder, curio, curiousness, interest, oddity, rarity, nosiness, prying, prodigy, marvel, novelty, peculiarity.
- **ціле 1**. total; synonyms (adj) aggregate, complete, all, absolute, entire, gross, downright, general, (n) whole, amount, sum, tally, entirety, (v) count, number; antonyms (adj) partial, incomplete, qualified, 2. all; synonyms (adv) purely, altogether, entirely, totally, wholly, apiece, completely, quite, (adj) universal, each, every, alone, outright, (det) any, (n) everything; antonyms (pron) none, (det) some.
- цілий 1. whole; *synonyms* (*adj*) entire, total, all, complete, integral, aggregate, full, healthy, intact, well, gross, unbroken, (*n*) sum, sound, hale; *antonyms* (*adj*) incomplete, broken, imperfect, partial, (*n*) part, 2. all; *synonyms* (*adv*) whole, purely, altogether, entirely, totally, wholly, apiece, completely, (*adj*) universal, each, every, alone, (*det*) any, (*n*) entirety, everything; *antonyms* (*pron*) none, (*det*) some, 3. full; *synonyms* (*adj*) absolute, abundant, broad, flush, ample, enough, extensive,

- detailed, comprehensive, copious, good, plump, undivided, wide, (n) crowded; antonyms (adj) empty, lacking, starving, hungry, sketchy, 4. entire; synonyms (adj) perfect, utter, clean, mere, radical, dead, livelong, undiminished, implicit, main, finished, general, (n) stallion, stark, unabridged, 5. total; synonyms (adj) downright, outright, overall, sheer, thorough, unconditional, pure, (n) amount, tally, quantity, (v) count, number, figure, add, score; antonym (adj) qualified, 6. integral; synonyms (adj) inherent, constitutional, inbuilt, constituent, integrant, organic, exponential, fluxional, (n) differential.
- **цілинний** virgin; *synonyms* (*adj*) pure, vestal, chaste, innocent, new, fresh, intact, untouched, unmixed, virginal, virtuous, unmarried, (*n*) maiden, maid, girl.
- цілісність integrity; synonyms (n) honesty, probity, completeness, fairness, entireness, fidelity, justice, morality, righteousness, unity, goodness, constancy, (adj) candor, honor, equity; antonyms (n) dishonesty, wickedness.
- цілковитий 1. absolute; synonyms (adj) downright, peremptory, total, unconditional, categorical, full, real, unqualified, utter, actual, arbitrary, authoritative, certain, complete, (n) positive; antonyms (adj) partial, qualified, 2. total; synonyms (adj) aggregate, all, absolute, entire, gross, general, (n) whole, amount, sum, tally, entirety, (v) count, number, figure, add; antonym (adj) incomplete, 3. pure; synonyms (adj) just, genuine, natural, artless, clean, clear, faultless, fresh, good, guileless, immaculate, innocent, mere, perfect, (n) chaste; antonyms (adj) impure, contaminated, diluted, dishonored, tainted, wicked.
- цілком 1. completely; synonyms (adv) all, altogether, thoroughly, entirely, stark, wholly, bodily, absolutely, exactly, fully, perfectly, simply, (adj) out, throughout, quite; antonyms (adv) partly, partially, hardly, 2. entirely; synonyms (adv) totally, clean, solely, alone, exclusively, only, right, utterly, dead, really, extremely, just, very, whole, (adj) completely, 3. quite; synonyms (adv) sheer, enough, even, fairly, rather, well, awfully, far, pretty, somewhat, full, purely, clear, comparatively, (adj) outright, 4. wholly; synonym (adv) unreservedly, **5**. altogether; *synonyms* (*adv*) ensemble, generally, **6**. fully; synonyms (adv) downright, amply, abundantly, adequately, considerably, favorably, carefully, sufficiently, advantageously, (adj) complete, effectually; antonym (adv) superficially, 7. thoroughly; synonyms (adv) deeply, exhaustively, soundly, good, profoundly, sound, terribly; antonym (adv) carelessly, 8. well (добре); synonyms (adv) easily, correctly, (adj) healthy, fit, shaft, robust, hale, happy, hearty, (n) fountain, spring, pit, hollow, fountainhead, (v) gush; antonyms (adv) ill, badly, poorly, (adj) sick, unwell, dying, nauseous, 9. all; synonyms (adv) apiece, (adj) universal, each, every, gross, entire, (n) aggregate, entirety, everything, sum, total, (det) any; antonyms (pron) none, (det) some, 10. bodily; synonyms (adj) corporeal, material, physical, animal, carnal, corporal, personal, real, sensual, somatic, (adv) fleshly; antonyms (adj) mental, spiritual, 11. absolutely; synonyms (adv) surely, categorically, decidedly, definitely, precisely, truly, clearly, directly,

- emphatically, expressly, indeed, merely, peremptorily, (int) positively, certainly; antonym (adv) doubtfully, 12. dully; synonyms (adv) justly, punctually, rightfully, accordingly, equitably, lawfully, legally, orderly, befittingly, decorously, methodically, strictly, technically; antonym (adv) unduly, 13. perfectly; synonym (adv) flawlessly; antonym (adv) imperfectly.
- **цілувати** kiss; *synonyms* (*n*) buss, brush, osculation, salute, touch, (*v*) caress, embrace, osculate, love.
- **цілуватися** kiss; *synonyms* (*n*) buss, brush, osculation, salute, touch, (*v*) caress, embrace, osculate, love.
- **ніль 1**. aim; *synonyms* (n) intent, objective, plan, target, design, intention, meaning, (v) purpose, direct, object, point, address, endeavor, aspire, propose, **2**. goal; *synonyms* (n) aim, butt, destination, end, basket, ambition, aspiration, limit, finish, home, mark, mission, reason, wish, (v) bound, **3**. mark; *synonyms* (n) brand, evidence, score, character, heed, impression, imprint, sign, feature, (v) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (adj) notice, **4**. target; *synonyms* (n) goal, focus, prey, mug, quarry, sucker, (v) level, place, **5**. purpose; *synonyms* (n) mind, effect, purport, resolve, motive, determination, function, idea, cause, decision, drift, (v) project, intend, decide, mean.
- цілющий 1. beneficial; synonyms (adj) advantageous, favorable, fruitful, handy, profitable, useful, expedient, gainful, good, healthy, productive, propitious, salutary, serviceable, wholesome; antonyms (adj) useless, disadvantageous, harmful, 2. healthy; synonyms (adj) healthful, fit, hale, salubrious, beneficial, hearty, sound, well, whole, sane, abundant, nutritious, active, firm, flourishing; antonyms (adj) unhealthy, unwell, unfit, dependent, fattening, infected, soporific, unwholesome, weak.
- **ціна 1.** price; *synonyms* (*n*) cost, worth, charge, expense, figure, damage, fee, payment, toll, (*v*) appraise, estimate, amount, assess, (*adj*) merit, value, 2. value (Baptictb); *synonyms* (*n*) importance, rate, consequence, regard, (*v*) price, appreciate, esteem, evaluate, cherish, measure, prize, rank, respect, revere, treasure; *antonyms* (*n*) disadvantage, futility, uselessness, insignificance, 3. cost; *synonyms* (*n*) disbursement, expenditure, sacrifice, budget, forfeit, bill, expenses, loss, outlay, quotation, penalty, (*v*) be, 4. rate; *synonyms* (*n*) pace, percentage, frequency, gait, proportion, tax, (*v*) compute, count, calculate, put, gauge, deserve, order, place, scold, 5. quotation; *synonyms* (*n*) citation, extract, mention, excerpt, passage, reference, quote, example, instance, allusion, credit.
- **ILIHUTU** appreciate; *synonyms* (v) esteem, prize, treasure, value, appraise, fathom, acknowledge, admire, apprize, cherish, comprehend, enjoy, estimate, grasp, (adi) understand; antonyms (v) depreciate, scorn.
- цінний 1. valuable; synonyms (adj) costly, estimable, precious, beneficial, expensive, helpful, useful, worthy, admirable, important, dear, invaluable, priceless, profitable, rich; antonyms (adj) worthless, useless, 2. costly; synonyms (adj) valuable, extravagant, high, luxurious, pricey, sumptuous, beloved, plush, pricy, splendid; antonym (adj) cheap, 3. rich; synonyms (adj) abundant, copious, fertile, productive, fruitful, full,

- affluent, ample, deep, fat, opulent, plentiful, prolific, bright, liberal; *antonyms* (*adj*) poor, broke, destitute, impoverished, light, **4**. precious; *synonyms* (*adj*) cherished, golden, choice, inestimable, exquisite, cute, noble, good, goodly, adorable, sweet, valued, (*n*) darling, (*adv*) extremely, preciously.
- **цінність 1.** worth; *synonyms* (n) merit, value, cost, price, virtue, importance, excellence, dignity, quality, benefit, goodness, import, good, substance, fortune; *antonym* (n) worthlessness, **2.** value (Baptrictb); *synonyms* (n) appraise, rate, consequence, regard, (v) appreciate, assess, esteem, evaluate, cherish, estimate, measure, prize, rank, respect, revere; *antonyms* (n) disadvantage, futility, uselessness, insignificance, **3.** price; *synonyms* (n) worth, charge, expense, figure, damage, fee, payment, toll, expenditure, quotation, quote, reward, (v) amount, estimation, (adi) desert.
- цінувати 1. value (вартість); synonyms (n) merit, cost, appraise, importance, rate, consequence, (v) price, appreciate, assess, esteem, evaluate, cherish, estimate, measure, prize; antonyms (n) disadvantage, futility, uselessness, insignificance, 2. appreciate; synonyms (v) treasure, value, fathom, acknowledge, admire, apprize, comprehend, enjoy, grasp, know, like, recognize, respect, (adīj) understand, realize; antonyms (v) depreciate, scorn, 3. rate; synonyms (n) worth, pace, percentage, charge, frequency, gait, (v) compute, count, calculate, put, rank, gauge, deserve, order, place.
- **μίποκ 1**. club; synonyms (n) association, bat, circle, society, stick, baton, company, cudgel, fraternity, gang, group, guild, (ν) beat, bludgeon, hit, **2**. stick; synonyms (n) bar, club, (ν) adhere, stab, attach, cling, fix, paste, staff, cohere, affix, bind, cleave, fasten, hold.
- **цнотливий** innocent; *synonyms* (*adj*) harmless, chaste, artless, clear, ingenuous, innocuous, guileless, guiltless, ignorant, blameless, faultless, gullible, naive, pure, spotless; *antonyms* (*adj*) guilty, culpable, responsible, wary, wicked.
- **цнотливість 1.** virtue; *synonyms* (*n*) chastity, honor, excellence, goodness, honesty, decency, morality, quality, probity, efficacy, good, modesty, potency, (*adj*) merit, attribute; *antonyms* (*n*) wickedness, guilt, **2.** innocence; *synonyms* (*n*) cleanness, blamelessness, ignorance, artlessness, gullibility, ingenuousness, purity, innocency, simplicity, sinlessness, virtue, candor, frankness, honour; *antonym* (*n*) sophistication.
- цоколь base; *synonyms* (n) foundation, basis, (adj) bottom, abject, mean, dishonorable, ignoble, low, vile, bad, contemptible, despicable, foul, (v) ground, found; antonyms (n) summit, top, (adj) noble.
- **ЦУКЕРКА** sweet; *synonyms* (*adj*) beloved, delicious, fresh, lovely, mellow, dear, lovable, melodious, musical, pleasant, pleasing, sugary, charming, delightful, (*n*) confection; *antonyms* (*adj*) sour, acid, bitter, discordant, acidic, pungent, sharp, salty.
- цукор sugar; *synonyms* (*n*) honey, darling, carbohydrate, saccharide, love, beloved, baby, (*v*) saccharify, sweeten, (*adi*) dear
- **цькування** chase; *synonyms* (n) game, search, quest, (v) hunt, pursue, expel, follow, stalk, track, trail, chamfer, pursuit, race, seek, evict.

цятка spot; synonyms (n) blot, place, speck, stain, dot, dapple, dirty, location, mark, (v) blemish, soil, fleck, speckle, daub, flaw.

#### Ч

- **чабан** shepherd; *synonyms* (*n*) pastor, clergyman, minister, sheepherder, sheepman, priest, presbyter, churchman, divine, ecclesiastic, (*v*) conduct, guide, lead, guard, cowherd.
- **чагарник** bush; *synonyms* (n) shrub, bushing, wild, chaparral, hedge, jungle, plant, scrub, wilderness.
- **чадити** smoke; *synonyms* (*n*) fumes, fog, mist, perfume, smoking, smoulder, (*v*) fume, reek, fumigate, puff, exhale, cure, burn, smolder, (*adj*) smudge.
- **чадо** child (дитина); *synonyms* (n) baby, boy, babe, bairn, brat, girl, infant, juvenile, kid, minor, toddler, tot, youngster, innocent, imp; *antonym* (n) adult.
- чай tea; synonyms (n) reception, meal, party, teatime, (v) chocolate, cocoa, coffee.
- **чайник** kettle; *synonyms* (*n*) boiler, can, kettledrum, kettleful, timpani, urn, alembic, bolthead, capsule, pan, bucket, container, eardrum, matrass, receiver.
- чайові tip; *synonyms* (n) top, hint, peak, point, pinnacle, apex, bribe, clue, crown, gratuity, (v) incline, tilt, dump, lean, slant.
- **Чаклунка** witch; *synonyms* (*n*) hag, pythoness, enchantress, sorceress, magician, lamia, wizard, augur, (*v*) enchant, bewitch, charm, glamour, hex, jinx, fascinate.
- **Чаклунство** medicine; *synonyms* (*n*) cure, drug, medicament, medication, physic, remedy, therapy, treatment, cathartic, potion, preparation, antidote, (*v*) medicate.
- чан vat; synonyms (n) tub, barrel, cask, tun, container, jar, drum.
- чари 1. charm; *synonyms* (n) allure, amulet, appeal, spell, attraction, conjure, (v) attract, captivate, bewitch, fascinate, enchant, entrance, beguile, capture, enamor; *antonyms* (n) repulsion, ugliness, (v) repel, 2. spell; *synonyms* (n) magic, fascination, bout, conjuration, incantation, period, sorcery, enchantment, turn, span, bewitchment, space, captivation, attack, (v) charm.
- чарівний 1. magic; synonyms (adj) magical, charming, supernatural, (n) conjuration, incantation, charm, enchantment, legerdemain, sorcery, glamour, fascination, illusion, theurgy, trick, deception, 2. delicious; synonyms (adj) delicate, appetizing, delightful, pleasing, agreeable, dainty, delectable, enjoyable, lovely, luscious, savory, sweet, toothsome, grateful, fragrant; antonym (adj) tasteless, 3. fairy; synonyms (n) elf, faerie, sprite, fag, faggot, fagot, imp, pixie, fay, goblin, nymph, pansy, poof, poove, (adj) faery, 4. glamorous; synonyms (adj) fascinating, enchanting, engaging, attractive, colorful, glamourous, swanky, 5. charming; synonyms (adj) amiable, beautiful, captivating, winning, nice, adorable, alluring, amusing, appealing, bewitching, cute, exquisite, lovable,

- magic, pleasant; *antonyms* (*adj*) repellent, unappealing, unpleasant, **6**. magical; *synonyms* (*adj*) mystic, miraculous, mysterious, occult, sorcerous, witching, wizard, wizardly, **7**. pretty; *synonyms* (*adv*) very, fairly, jolly, quite, rather, somewhat, (*adj*) fair, graceful, handsome, good-looking, picturesque, elegant, fine, neat, smart; *antonym* (*adj*) ugly.
- чарівність 1. charm; *synonyms* (*n*) allure, amulet, appeal, spell, attraction, conjure, (*v*) attract, captivate, bewitch, fascinate, enchant, entrance, beguile, capture, enamor; *antonyms* (*n*) repulsion, ugliness, (*v*) repel, 2. fascination; *synonyms* (*n*) charm, bewitchment, enchantment, glamor, glamour, captivation, charisma, enthrallment, magic, magnetism, trance, allurement, draw, interest, lure; *antonym* (*n*) distraction.
- чарка сар; *synonyms* (*n*) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (*v*) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.
- **Чародій κα** witch; *synonyms* (n) hag, pythoness, enchantress, sorceress, magician, lamia, wizard, augur, (ν) enchant, bewitch, charm, glamour, hex, jinx, fascinate.
- **чартер** charter; *synonyms* (n) hire, permit, authority, code, law, license, constitution, contract, franchise, (ν) let, rent, engage, lease, take, get.
- **чарувати** charm; *synonyms* (n) allure, amulet, appeal, spell, attraction, conjure, (ν) attract, captivate, bewitch, fascinate, enchant, entrance, beguile, capture, enamor; *antonyms* (n) repulsion, ugliness, (ν) repel.
- **4ac 1.** time; *synonyms* (n) hour, moment, period, duration, epoch, era, measure, season, day, spell, age, instant, interval, space, tempo; *antonym* (n) death, **2.** while; *synonyms* (*conj*) as, whereas, although, though, (n) time, bit, piece, (*prep*) during, (*adv*) when, whilst, because, **3.** tense; *synonyms* (*adj*) strained, edgy, nervous, taut, stiff, uptight, jumpy, wired, stretched, jittery, tight, (v) overwrought, strain, extend, tighten; *antonyms* (*adj*) relaxed, calm, comfortable, tranquil, loose, (v) relax.
- **часи** time; *synonyms* (n) hour, moment, period, duration, epoch, era, measure, season, day, spell, age, instant, interval, space, tempo; *antonym* (n) death.
- часник garlic; *synonyms* (n) ail, caviare, pickle, onion, (adj) fungus.
- **Tacom 1.** Sometimes; synonyms (adv) occasionally, once, formerly, sometime, seldom, periodically, off-and-on, otherwhiles, usually, consistently, constantly, (n) exemplar, meantime, meanwhile, (adj) former, 2. occasionally; synonyms (adv) sometimes, irregularly, infrequently, uncommonly; antonyms (adv) frequently, regularly.
- часопис 1. journal; synonyms (n) diary, book, magazine, newspaper, periodical, ephemeris, chronicle, log, record, annals, calendar, organ, (adj) daybook, daily, diurnal, 2. newspaper (газета); synonyms (n) journal, gazette, paper, news, print, publisher, newsprint, press, publication, 3. magazine; synonyms (n) cartridge, clip, entrepot, mag, comic, depository, arsenal, monthly, pamphlet, weekly, repertory, review, storehouse, warehouse. (v) store.

- частий frequent; *synonyms* (*adj*) continual, everyday, familiar, many, ordinary, incessant, habitual, accustomed, commonplace, (*v*) common, customary, usual, haunt, patronize, attend; *antonyms* (*adj*) rare, infrequent, occasional.
- частина 1. part; synonyms (n) constituent, piece, article, character, component, cut, division, portion, section, share, (v) branch, break, disjoin, divide, divorce; antonyms (n) whole, entirety, (adj) complete, 2. share; synonyms (n) deal, dole, lot, allotment, interest. proportion, (v) participate, allot, apportion, distribute, part, partake, dispense, partition, assign; antonym (v) control, 3. section; synonyms (n) compartment, percentage, class, chapter, clause, department, episode, region, subdivision, quarter, area, arm, district, fraction, (v) segment, 4. portion; synonyms (n) fragment, parcel, allowance, destiny, fate, fortune, installment, member, dispensation, element, bit, chunk, dose, (v) dividend, allocate, 5. quantum; synonyms (n) amount, measure, magnitude, quantity, mass, measurement, sum, total, amplitude, 6. piece; synonyms (n) composition, hunk, lump, patch, block, coin, cutting, gun, item, opus, bite, act, passage, sample, (v) picture.
- частка 1. fraction; synonyms (n) divide, part, segment, bit, division, piece, proportion, section, share, faction, cut, fragment, portion, ratio, (adj) constituent, 2. particle; synonyms (n) molecule, grain, speck, iota, jot, mite, ace, corpuscle, crumb, dot, mote, point, shred, spot, (adj) atom, 3. portion; synonyms (n) allot, component, parcel, dole, allowance, deal, destiny, fate, fortune, (v) lot, dividend, allotment, assign, dispense, distribute, 4. dose; synonyms (n) potion, dosage, draught, medicine, batch, doctor, measure, shot, contingent, pill, (v) drug, 5. deal; synonyms (n) bargain, buy, agreement, arrangement, covenant, trade, convention, compact, (v) administer, apportion, conduct, contract, cope, truck, accord; antonym (n) purchase, 6. part; synonyms (n) article, character, element, factor, (v) branch, break, disjoin, divorce, class, cleave, dissociate, depart, detach, disconnect, disunite; antonyms (n) whole, entirety, (adi) complete, 7. quota; synonyms (n) quantity, ration, slice, rate, percentage, helping, stint.
- частковий partial; synonyms (adj) incomplete, imperfect, fragmentary, unfair, sectional, inequitable, biased, part, unequal, halfway, partisan, prejudiced, unfinished, unjust, (v) party; antonyms (adj) complete, impartial, total, absolute, comprehensive, unbiased.
- **частково 1.** partly; synonyms (adv) partially, part, halfway, incompletely, relatively, party, carelessly, comparatively, inadequately, insufficiently, measurably, (adj) half, semi, quasi, (pron) what; antonyms (adv) completely, wholly, entirely, **2.** partially; synonyms (adv) partly, moderately, imperfectly, respectively, somewhat, superficially, unfairly, unreasonably, discriminatorily, fairly, fractionally, irrationally, particularly, regardfully, (adv, adj) piecemeal; antonym (adv) totally.
- **часто 1.** often; synonyms (adv) frequently, oft, much, oftentimes, ofttimes, repeatedly, commonly, (adj) frequent; antonyms (adv) rarely, seldom, 2. frequently; synonyms (adv) often, continually, usually, always,

- hourly, mostly, ordinarily, regularly, customarily; *antonyms* (*adv*) infrequently, unusually, **3**. again; *synonyms* (*adv*) afresh, more, anew, encore, then, also, further.
- **частота** frequency; synonyms (n) frequence, incidence, commonness, prevalence, constancy, oftenness, abundance, oftness, pitch, density, community, concourse, crowd, generalness, measure.
- **частотність** frequency; *synonyms* (n) frequence, incidence, commonness, prevalence, constancy, oftenness, abundance, oftness, pitch, density, community, concourse, crowd, generalness, measure.
- **Частування** treat; *synonyms* (v) handle, deal, manage, process, heal, nurse, regale, operate, doctor, (n) feast, administer, delicacy, luxury, tidbit, banquet.
- **чатувати** watch; *synonyms* (*v*) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (*n*) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (*adi*) vigilance.
- **Чахнути** pine (сосна); synonyms (n) yearn, sink, (v) languish, long, ache, droop, flag, fade, suffer, decline, yen, die, (adi) peak.
- чаша 1. basin; *synonyms* (n) bowl, pot, depression, dock, hollow, tank, washbasin, washbowl, basinful, cavity, cup, lavatory, pool, sink, washstand, 2. bowl; *synonyms* (n) basin, plate, container, stadium, arena, bowlful, trough, coliseum, (v) hurl, roll, toss, troll, trundle, twirl.
- чашка сup; *synonyms* (n) chalice, basin, trophy, destiny, fate, bowl, cupful, glass, portion, bleed.
- чверть quarter; synonyms (n) area, part, district, division, mercy, neighborhood, region, direction, portion, quart, (v) place, lodge, line, put, accommodate.
- **THE 1.** cheque, *synonyms* (n) draft, arrest, assay, bridle, checkout, chip, chit, confirmation, crack, curb, halt, hitch, stay, stop, (v) check, **2.** draft; *synonyms* (n) bill, conscription, sketch, drawing, (v) draught, outline, design, blueprint, compose, enlist, plan, recruit, chart, delineate, draw; *antonym* (v) discharge.
- чеканити coin; synonyms (n) cash, money, specie, currency, piece, (v) forge, invent, mint, originate, create, strike, cast, devise, fabricate, weave.
- чекання 1. wait (чекати); synonyms (v) expect, anticipate, stop, ambush, await, lurk, stay, linger, remain, abide, hesitate, (n) delay, pause, hold, (adj) tarry,
  2. waiting; synonyms (adj) ready, expectant, hesitant, (n) wait, abeyance, suspense, expectancy, postponement,
  3. expectation; synonyms (n) anticipation, belief, hope, prospect, confidence, outlook, possibility, trust, faith, forecast, probability, thought, optimism; antonym (n)
- **чекати 1**. wait; *synonyms* (v) expect, anticipate, stop, ambush, await, lurk, stay, linger, remain, abide, hesitate, (n) delay, pause, hold, (adj) tarry, **2**. expect; *synonyms* (v) assume, believe, demand, understand, calculate, hope, suppose, think, conceive, call, mean, ask, bear, carry, conjecture.
- чемний 1. polite; *synonyms* (*adj*) courteous, cultured, civil, courtly, genteel, gentle, proper, refined, attentive, kind, friendly, chivalrous, civilized, complaisant, considerate; *antonyms* (*adj*) impolite, rude, badmannered, discourteous, boorish, 2. civil; *synonyms*

- (adj) polite, civic, affable, gracious, mannerly, municipal, obliging, public, civilised, domestic, national, respectful, secular, social, temporal; antonym (adj) abrupt, 3. delicate; synonyms (adj) fine, accurate, breakable, dainty, fragile, tender, beautiful, brittle, difficult, frail, nice, sensitive, soft, slim, agreeable; antonyms (adj) strong, inelegant, robust, heavy, sturdy, tough.
- **Чемність** courtesy; *synonyms* (n) civility, propriety, chivalry, comity, decency, gallantry, politeness, attention, breeding, etiquette, affability, consideration, courteousness, graciousness, (adj) complaisance; *antonyms* (n) rudeness, discourtesy.
- чемодан 1. suitcase; *synonyms* (*n*) bag, case, grip, luggage, handbag, bagful, base, clasp, clench, clutch, clutches, dish, grasp, hairgrip, handgrip, 2. bag; *synonyms* (*n*) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, container, knapsack, (*v*) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net, pilfer, 3. case; *synonyms* (*n*) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, action, cause, (*adj*) patient.
- чемпіон champion; *synonyms* (n) advocate, backer, partisan, ace, fighter, hero, champ, defender, exponent, paladin, patron, (v) defend, support, back, maintain; *antonym* (v) oppose.
- **чемпіонат** championship; *synonyms* (n) backing, patronage, support, title.
- чепурний neat; synonyms (adj) adroit, elegant, clear, natty, tidy, graceful, dainty, clean, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, methodical, nifty, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered.
- **червоний** red; *synonyms* (*adj*) crimson, flushed, carmine, glowing, rosy, ruby, sanguine, cherry, pink, radical, ruddy, scarlet, cerise, bloody, inflamed.
- **Черга 1.** turn; *synonyms* (*v*) revolve, deviate, get, revolution, (*n*) bend, curve, roll, coil, go, twist, bout, change, round, bent, circle, **2.** queue; *synonyms* (*n*) cue, rank, row, string, tail, rear, wake, catchword, flap, (*v*) line, align, adjust, aline, dress, find, **3.** line; *synonyms* (*n*) cord, file, house, breed, course, family, lineage, field, ancestry, border, boundary, cable, crease, stock, (*v*) order
- чергування 1. duty; synonyms (n) business, function, commitment, assignment, charge, chore, obligation, dues, job, must, office, part, responsibility, tax, work, 2. rotation; synonyms (n) revolution, gyration, roll, round, turn, circulation, curl, cycle, wheel, orbit, sequence, bout.
- чергувати watch; *synonyms* (*v*) observe, clock, look, see, regard, wake, care, protect, defend, (*n*) guard, view, sentinel, sentry, surveillance, (*adj*) vigilance.
- черевик 1. shoe; *synonyms* (*n*) boot, horseshoe, skid, clog, splint, spoke, sprit, base, stilts, stirrup, galoshes, 2. boot; *synonyms* (*n*) kick, trunk, bang, charge, gain, kicking, shoe, belt, body, thrill.
- **черевний** abdominal; *synonyms* (*adj*) ventral, endomorphic, intestinal, duodenal, hemal, stomachic, visceral, (*n*) ab.

- череда herd; synonyms (n) flock, swarm, drove, gang, crew, covey, mob, multitude, band, company, (v) crowd, cluster, drive, (adj) bevy, shoal.
- через 1. across; synonyms (prep) athwart, cross, overthwart, (adv) over, crossways, crosswise, (adi) crossed; antonyms (adv) along, (adj) uncrossed, 2. through; synonyms (prep) for, per, because, throughout, (adv) by, thorough, via, (adj) finished, done, direct, straight, completed, complete, (prf) past, 3. over; synonyms (adv) beyond, across, more, o'er, on, too, anew, again, (prep) above, during, (n) overs, (adj) extra, odd, gone, out, 4. via; synonyms (prep) with, toward, (adv) through, using, 5. in (y); synonyms (prep) between, at, inside, (adv) indoors, inward, (v) press, (n) inch, (adj) stylish, fashionable, inwards, trendy, within, modish, popular; antonym (prep) outside, 6. with; synonyms (prep) alongside, among, plus, (adv) beside, (adj) including, (n) withe, 7. for; synonyms (prep) behind, (conj) considering, since, (adv) against, as, therefore hence.
- **череп** skull; *synonyms* (n) pate, noddle, head, noggin, shell, intellectual, pupil, (adj) exceptional, smart.
- чернецтво religion (релігія); synonyms (n) piety, creed, faith, cult, denomination, sect, church, devotion, holiness, persuasion.
- **Черниця** sister; *synonyms* (*n*) nun, nurse, brother, mate, twin, baby, counterpart, double, match, member, pair, pendant, sis.
- черпати bucket; *synonyms* (*n*) tub, bucketful, container, pail, scoop, mug, pipkin, skeel, tankard, pan, can, grab, skip, boat, car.
- чесний 1. honest; synonyms (adj) fair, genuine, equitable, good, sincere, artless, candid, clean, decent, dependable, faithful, forthright, frank, guileless, heartfelt; antonyms (adj) dishonest, corrupt, guarded, lying, misleading, disloyal, unwholesome, 2. fair; synonyms (adj) clear, beautiful, average, dispassionate, fine, impartial, reasonable, sweet, comely, considerable, disinterested, (n) bazaar, blonde, carnival, (v) bright; antonyms (adj) unfair, biased, dark, exceptional, unjust, partial, foul. imbalanced, mismatched, prejudiced, unwarranted, 3. honourable; synonyms (adj) honest, estimable, honorable, ethical, moral, 4, straightforward: synonyms (adj) straight, direct, open, square, plain, simple, aboveboard, easy, immediate, outspoken, outright, downright, ingenuous, unsophisticated, upright; antonyms (adj) complicated, difficult, complex, deceitful, tricky, devious, mysterious, pompous.
- **чесність** 1. honesty; *synonyms* (n) candor, fairness, integrity, justice, candidness, equity, frankness, probity, chastity, decency, faith, honestness, morality, rectitude, (adj) fidelity; *antonyms* (n) dishonesty, deceit, deception, deviousness, treachery, wickedness, 2. integrity; *synonyms* (n) honesty, completeness, entireness, righteousness, unity, goodness, constancy, perfection, loyalty, principle, sincerity, totality, (adj) honor, dignity, faithfulness, 3. fairness; *synonyms* (n) beauty, candour, equality, reasonableness, impartiality, justness, loveliness, neutrality, veracity, beauteousness, blondness, (adj) comeliness; *antonyms* (n) injustice, unfairness, prejudice.

- **Techo 1.** honestly; *synonyms* (*adv*) frankly, fairly, candidly, directly, justly, sincerely, truly, faithfully, aboveboard, genuinely, openly, fair, bluntly, plainly, (*adj*) earnestly; *antonyms* (*adv*) dishonestly, deceitfully, misleadingly, **2.** fair; *synonyms* (*adj*) equitable, clear, beautiful, average, dispassionate, fine, impartial, reasonable, sweet, candid, (*adv*) clean, (*n*) bazaar, blonde, carnival, (*v*) bright; *antonyms* (*adj*) unfair, biased, dark, exceptional, unjust, partial, foul, imbalanced, mismatched, prejudiced, unwarranted.
- **Чеснота** virtue; *synonyms* (n) chastity, honor, excellence, goodness, honesty, decency, morality, quality, probity, efficacy, good, modesty, potency, (adj) merit, attribute; *antonyms* (n) wickedness, guilt.
- **често.** пюбний ambitious; *synonyms* (*adj*) aspiring, difficult, eager, energetic, vaulting, challenging, competitive, desirous, enterprising, grandiose, pushy,
- **честолюбність** ambition; *synonyms* (*n*) aspiration, aim, ambitiousness, dream, drive, goal, hope, objective, purpose, target, wish, intention, design, desire, eagerness; *antonym* (*n*) apathy.
- **Честь** honour; *synonyms* (n) award, accolade, innocence, awarding, (ν) esteem, honor, respect, celebrate, observe, reward, comply, detect, discover, find, follow; *antonym* (ν) dishonor.
- **четвертий** fourth; *synonyms* (n) quarter, quartern, second, third, poop, stern, tail, (adv) fourthly, (adj) quaternary, quaternate.
- чи 1. or (або); *synonyms* (*conj*) otherwise, (*n*) operation, surgery, (*prep*) before, ere, 2. if; *synonyms* (*conj*) provided, although, providing, whether, though, and, so, an, gin, (*n*) but, conditionally, condition, stipulation, proviso. (*adv*) peradventure.
- чималий 1. considerable; synonyms (adj) big, large, ample, great, momentous, significant, sizable, substantial, consequential, influential, meaningful, pretty, extensive, fair, (v) important; antonyms (adj) small, insignificant, faint, trivial, 2. significant; synonyms (adj) material, grave, serious, critical, emphatic, expressive, indicative, major, pregnant, relevant, meaning, solemn, chief, crucial, (v) considerable; antonyms (adj) minor, unimportant.
- **чинити 1.** do; *synonyms* (*v*) act, cheat, commit, accomplish, complete, conduct, perform, achieve, make, practice, defraud, answer, arrange, (*n*) function, occasion; *antonyms* (*v*) neglect, unmake, **2**. behave; *synonyms* (*v*) bear, acquit, deal, deport, operate, walk, carry, comport, demean, do, go, react, run, work, (*n*) exercise; *antonym* (*v*) misbehave, **3**. act; *synonyms* (*n*) accomplishment, action, move, play, statute, decree, feat, law, performance, (*v*) achievement, behave, deed, enact, feign, pretend; *antonym* (*v*) refrain, **4**. make (poбити); *synonyms* (*v*) build, cause, construct, create, fashion, force, get, give, produce, let, compel, constitute, design, drive, (*n*) form; *antonyms* (*v*) destroy, lose.
- чинний 1. valid (дійсний); synonyms (adj) legal, sound, right, genuine, solid, forcible, substantial, authentic, good, legitimate, powerful, rightful, strong, true, cogent; antonyms (adj) unacceptable, invalid, annulled, bogus, illogical, 2. alive; synonyms (adj) active, live, living, sensible, vivacious, animated, lively,

- responsive, aware, eager, acute, energetic, animate, awake, extant; *antonyms* (adj) dead, deceased, inanimate
- чинник factor; *synonyms* (n) agent, component, broker, divisor, element, ingredient, part, deputy, consideration, feature, parameter, point, delegate, item, (adj) constituent.
- **ЧИННІСТЬ 1.** Validity; *synonyms* (n) force, truth, authority, legitimacy, soundness, certainty, cogency, effect, power, effectiveness, reality, authenticity, vigor, credibility, hardness, **2.** effect; *synonyms* (n) consequence, product, result, sequel, aftermath, conclusion, (v) accomplish, achieve, create, cause, complete, do, bring, carry, execute; *antonym* (n) reason.
- **Чиновник 1**. clerk; synonyms (n) writer, transcriber, accountant, employee, recorder, salesclerk, bailiff, cashier, (v) amanuensis, secretary, scribe, scrivener, **2**. official; synonyms (adj) formal, functional, regular, proper, sanctioned, magisterial, (n) officer, minister, bureaucrat, executive, functionary, administrator, (v) authoritative, administrative, authentic; antonyms (adj) unofficial, private, illegal, informal, **3**. officer; synonyms (n) captain, commander, officeholder, official, agent, manager, leader, policeman, representative, skipper, supervisor.
- **численний** numerous; *synonyms* (*adj*) manifold, many, abundant, frequent, multiple, multitudinous, copious, innumerable, plentiful, populous, great, myriad, rife, several, various; *antonym* (*adj*) few.
- число 1. number; *synonyms* (*n*) count, amount, score, act, issue, volume, character, (*v*) calculate, aggregate, enumerate, figure, total, come, add, account, 2. date; *synonyms* (*n*) age, appointment, assignation, engagement, epoch, meeting, period, era, time, year, boyfriend, (*v*) escort, determine, register, accompany, 3. tale; *synonyms* (*n*) story, narrative, fable, fib, narration, recital, report, fiction, history, legend, lie, relation, yarn, gossin, falsehood.
- чистий 1. clean; synonyms (adj) clear, fair, antiseptic, blank, pure, chaste, adroit, tidy, unblemished, (v) brush, cleanse, bathe, clarify, disinfect, sweep; antonyms (adj) filthy, unclean, muddy, unhygienic, full, syrupy, tainted, unwholesome, (v) dirty, soil, contaminate, pollute, 2. pure; synonyms (adj) just, absolute, genuine, natural, artless, clean, faultless, fresh, good, guileless, immaculate, innocent, mere, perfect, virtuous; antonyms (adj) impure, contaminated, diluted, dishonored, wicked, 3. blank: synonyms (adi) bare, empty, unfilled, vacant. deadpan, dull, expressionless, impassive, inexpressive, (n) space, form, emptiness, gap, hiatus, lacuna; antonyms (adj) animated, expressive, 4. clear; synonyms (adj) certain, open, apparent, distinct, light, plain, blameless, (v) bright, acquit, free, net, absolve, definite, discharge, exculpate; antonyms (adj) cloudy, opaque, unclear, dark, fuzzy, hazy, incomprehensible, obscure, uncertain, vague, ambiguous, blurry, confused, confusing, (v) convict, 5. absolute; synonyms (adj) downright, peremptory, total, unconditional, categorical, real, unqualified, utter, actual, arbitrary, authoritative, complete, conclusive, dictatorial, (n) positive; antonyms (adj) partial, qualified, 6. neat; synonyms (adj) elegant,

- natty, graceful, dainty, clever, deft, dexterous, methodical, nifty, pretty, straight, felicitous, dapper, great, (v) compact; *antonyms* (*adj*) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered, 7. net; *synonyms* (*adj*) final, last, (n) network, bag, lace, earnings, cobweb, lattice, (v) mesh, gain, make, trap, catch, earn, knit; *antonym* (v) gross.
- **чистильник** cleaner; *synonyms* (n) cleanser, lifter, custodian, donkeyman.
- **ЧИСТИТИ** clean; synonyms (adj) clear, fair, antiseptic, blank, pure, chaste, adroit, tidy, unblemished, (v) brush, cleanse, bathe, clarify, disinfect, sweep; antonyms (adj) filthy, unclean, muddy, unhygienic, full, syrupy, tainted, unwholesome, (v) dirty, soil, contaminate, pollute.
- **чистка 1.** cleaning; *synonyms* (*n*) cleansing, purge, purification, clearing, cleanup, separation, thin, refinement, wash, afterbirth, attack, clearout, crackdown, dedusting, degreasing, **2.** clearing; *synonyms* (*n*) clarification, glade, clearance, dell, lot, aisle, assart, colonization, defrayal, hollow, payment, region, track, allowance, basin.
- **чистокровний** pure; *synonyms* (*adj*) just, absolute, genuine, natural, artless, clean, clear, faultless, fresh, good, guileless, immaculate, innocent, mere, (*n*) chaste; *antonyms* (*adj*) impure, contaminated, diluted, dishonored, tainted, wicked.
- **THECTOTA 1.** purity; synonyms (n) innocence, holiness, cleanness, clearness, honor, virtue, perfection, chastity, pureness, sanctity, elegance, integrity, blamelessness, clarity, simplicity; antonyms (n) coarseness, guilt, **2**. clarity; synonyms (n) limpidity, comprehensibility, precision, purity, coherence, lucidity, pellucidity; antonyms (n) cloudiness, obscurity, vagueness, haziness, mistiness, opacity, uncertainty, unclearness, **3**. integrity; synonyms (n) honesty, probity, completeness, fairness, entireness, fidelity, justice, morality, righteousness, unity, goodness, constancy, (adj) candor, equity, dignity; antonyms (n) dishonesty, wickedness.
- **читання** reading; *synonyms* (n) recital, learning, construction, interpretation, lection, study, version, erudition, lore, explanation, presentation, recitation, scholarship, translation, (v) read.
- **читати** read; *synonyms* (v) interpret, construe, decipher, gather, indicate, learn, perceive, say, understand, demonstrate, comprehend, display, examine, explain, peruse.
- **ЧИТАЧ** reader; *synonyms* (*n*) lecturer, professor, lector, proofreader, reviewer, subscriber, compositor, preacher, printer
- **читець** reader; *synonyms* (n) lecturer, professor, lector, proofreader, reviewer, subscriber, compositor, preacher, printer.
- ЧІТКИЙ 1. neat; synonyms (adj) adroit, elegant, clear, natty, tidy, graceful, dainty, clean, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, methodical, nifty, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered, 2. precise; synonyms (adj) exact, accurate, correct, definite, minute, careful, certain, delicate, neat, particular, ceremonious, distinct, faithful, fastidious, (v) close; antonyms (adj) imprecise, inaccurate, vague, rough.

- чіткість definition; synonyms (n) description, account, explanation, interpretation, limitation, definiteness; antonym (n) bagginess.
- **ЧІТКО** 1. expressly; synonyms (adv) specially, distinctly, particularly, especially, explicitly, specifically, purposely, precisely, namely, 2. neatly; synonyms (adv) adroitly, cleanly, gracefully, deterously, fitly, nattily, tastefully, aptly, elegantly, prettily, cleverly, closely, comptly, deftly, (adj) nimbly; antonyms (adv) messily, shabbily, untidily.
- член member; synonyms (n) limb, part, supporter, extremity, phallus, portion, appendage, employee, fellow, section, constituent, division, element, follower, associate.
- **ЧЛЕНСТВО** membership; *synonyms* (*n*) association, alliance, attachment, connection, contribution, input, involvement, partaking, rank, relationship, sharing, associates, bias, brotherhood, club.
- **406it** boot; *synonyms* (n) kick, trunk, bang, charge, gain, kicking, shoe, belt, body, thrill.
- **човен** boat; *synonyms* (n) yacht, scull, craft, dinghy, ship, vessel, vehicle, shallop, schooner, sailboat, bateau, bowl, sauceboat, truck, (v) cruise.
- **чоло** brow; *synonyms* (*n*) peak, brink, height, crown, edge, eyebrow, forehead, front, rim, summit, top, verge, landing.
- чоловік 1. man; synonyms (n) fellow, gentleman, guy, person, husband, homo, human, humanity, humankind, humans, individual, mankind, mortal, (obj) he, male; antonym (n) woman, 2. husband; synonyms (n) consort, wife, hubby, man, master, mate, partner, spouse, baron, (v) conserve, economize, preserve, save, economise, 3. spouse; synonyms (n) match, companion, (v) neogamist, 4. male; synonyms (adj) masculine, manly, virile, manful, manlike, (n) chap; antonyms (adj) feminine, (n) female, 5. mate; synonyms (n) associate, compeer, friend, colleague, brother, buddy, chum, counterpart, crony, (v) equal, copulate, couple, pair, checkmate, (adj) comrade.
- **чоловіки 1**. men; *synonyms* (*n*) hands, manpower, army, custody, public, sex, troop, workforce, world, **2**. mankind; *synonyms* (*n*) man, humanity, humankind, humans, flesh, mortality, people.
- чоловічий 1. masculine; synonyms (adj) manly, manlike, virile, mankind, bold, cruel, adult, ape, beefcake, caveman, gallant, generative, hairy, honorable, (v) male; antonyms (adj) feminine, female, 2. male; synonyms (adj) masculine, manful, (n) chap, guy, man, (abj) he; antonym (n) woman.
- **40My** why; *synonyms* (*adv*) so, (*n*) wherefore, reason, grounds, conundrum, enigma, mystery, proof, riddle, (*adī*) indeed.
- чорний black; synonyms (adj) dark, sable, blackamoor, bleak, darkie, dirty, ebony, evil, nigger, unclean, cheerless, squalid, (v) sinister, villainous, blacken; antonym (n) white.
- **чорнило** ink; *synonyms* (*n*) mark, notoriety, publicity, (*v*) sign, subscribe, autograph, blacken, contract, employ, engage, hire, (*adj*) raven, sloe, smut, jet.

- **чорт** devil; *synonyms* (*n*) demon, fiend, ghost, daemon, deuce, monster, imp, rogue, (*v*) rag, torment, harass, bedevil, crucify, annoy, bother.
- **ЧОТИРИ** four; *synonyms* (*n*) quaternity, foursome, quadruplet, quaternary, quaternion, tetrad, quarter, square, ace, air, appearence, cast, casting, contrivance, direction.
- **ЧОХОЛ** case; *synonyms* (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, carton, (adj) patient.
- чудернацький odd; synonyms (adj) grotesque, exceptional, funny, abnormal, curious, droll, eccentric, extraordinary, singular, strange, chance, novel, anomalous, bizarre, fantastic; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, even, typical.
- чудесний wonderful (чудовий); synonyms (adj) extraordinary, marvelous, astonishing, excellent, remarkable, phenomenal, amazing, fantastic, grand, great, miraculous, strange, super, terrific, (n) incredible; antonyms (adj) awful, terrible, unpleasant, dreadful.
- чудний 1. funny; synonyms (adj) comical, amusing, droll, eccentric, facetious, fishy, peculiar, strange, diverting, comic, curious, entertaining, farcical, humorous, (adv) funnily; antonyms (adj) serious, grave, 2. strange; synonyms (adj) extraneous, foreign, abnormal, extraordinary, irregular, mysterious, new, odd, outlandish, unusual, rare, alien, anomalous, different, eerie; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, familiar, typical, 3. odd; synonyms (adj) grotesque, exceptional, funny, singular, chance, novel, bizarre, fantastic, individual, queer, laughable, erratic, particular, unaccountable, casual; antonym (adj) even.
- чудо 1. miracle; *synonyms* (*n*) marvel, wonder, prodigy, phenomenon, surprise, wonderwork, event, sensation, 2. wonder; *synonyms* (*v*) admire, query, question, reflect, speculate, (*n*) admiration, amazement, astonishment, miracle, muse, wonderment, appreciation, awe, curiosity, portent.
- чудовий 1. wonderful; synonyms (adj) extraordinary, marvelous, astonishing, excellent, remarkable, phenomenal, amazing, fantastic, grand, great, miraculous, strange, super, terrific, (n) incredible; antonyms (adj) awful, terrible, unpleasant, dreadful, 2. superb; synonyms (adi) splendid, beautiful, brilliant, magnificent, exquisite, gorgeous, glorious, rich, majestic, royal, fabulous, fine, good, stately, sublime, 3. magnificent; synonyms (adj) imposing, illustrious, grandiose, elegant, superb, divine, luxurious, brave, impressive, lovely, awesome, mighty, noble, outstanding, palatial, 4. glorious; synonyms (adj) famous, distinguished, bright, celebrated, eminent, proud, resplendent, lofty, cool, famed, regal, dignified, heavenly, lustrous, radiant, 5. delightful; synonyms (adj) agreeable, delectable, delicious, charming, pleasing, grateful, adorable, amiable, blissful, nice, captivating, congenial, cute, enjoyable, lovable; antonyms (adj) hateful, unwelcome, 6. delicious; synonyms (adj) delicate, appetizing, delightful, dainty, luscious, savory, sweet, toothsome, fragrant, juicy, pleasant, scrumptious, succulent, tasty, wonderful; antonym (adj) tasteless, 7. fine; synonyms (adj) capital, thin, acute, admirable,

alright, choice, polite, stunning, superior, well, exact, (n) penalty, amercement, (v) punish, mulct; antonyms (adj) poor, thick, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, wide, 8. a; synonyms (n) amp, ampere, angstrom, axerophthol, forenoon, morn, morning, (v) grammar, initiation, (adj) cream, elite, flower, masterpiece, pick, prime, 9. great; synonyms (adj) gigantic, big, extensive, extreme, large, chief, ample, considerable, massive, spacious, voluminous, vigorous, almighty, bulky, dandy; antonyms (adj) small, insignificant, tiny, mild, 10. immense; synonyms (adj) huge, vast, colossal, enormous, immeasurable, boundless, giant, infinite, endless, gargantuan, incalculable, monumental. prodigious, untold, whopping, 11. excellent; synonyms (adi) estimable, distinctive, perfect. tremendous, commendable, golden, crack, classic, better, complete, exceptional, exemplary, ideal, incomparable, (n) worthy; antonyms (adj) inferior, abysmal, mediocre, 12. gorgeous; synonyms (adj) attractive, gaudy, gay, costly, handsome, opulent, pretty, showy, striking, sumptuous; *antonym* (adj) ugly, 13. beautiful (красивий); synonyms (adj) good-looking, beauteous, picturesque, adorned, ornate, stylish, bonny, fair, graceful, refined, tasteful, alluring; antonym (adj) unattractive, 14. remarkable; synonyms (adj) notable, noteworthy, odd, conspicuous, curious, noticeable, rare, signal, singular, uncommon, prominent, funny, peculiar, queer, (n) memorable; antonyms (adj) ordinary, unremarkable, 15. prime; synonyms (adj) main, first, head, early, essential, fundamental, paramount, primary, overriding, premier, (n) best, cardinal, bloom, blossom, (v) ground; antonym (adj) minor, 16. noble; synonyms (adj) elevated, exalted, generous, high, patrician, aristocratic, gallant, gentle, heroic, honorable, imperial, liberal, lordly, magnanimous, (n) aristocrat; antonyms (adj) lower-class, selfish, shameful, humble, dishonorable, lowly.

- чудово remarkably; *synonyms* (*adv*) outstandingly, unusually, especially, extremely, notably, very, greatly, exceedingly, exceptionally, signally, (*adj*) noticeably, particularly, conspicuously, markedly, prominently; *antonym* (*adv*) unremarkably.
- чужий 1. foreign; synonyms (adj) alien, extraneous, extrinsic, exotic, exterior, external, strange, oversea, adventitious, outlandish, peregrine, remote, unfamiliar, unknown, different; antonyms (adj) native, familiar, domestic, internal, 2. alien; synonyms (adj) foreign, unusual, hostile, outside, (n) foreigner, outsider, stranger, emigrant, extraterrestrial, immigrant, outlander, (v) alienate, estrange, disaffect; antonym (n) citizen, 3. strange; synonyms (adj) peculiar, abnormal, curious, extraordinary, irregular, mysterious, new, odd, rare, anomalous, eerie, marvelous, novel, quaint, queer; antonyms (adj) normal, ordinary, typical.
- чужинець alien; synonyms (adj) foreign, strange, unknown, extrinsic, exotic, extraneous, remote, unfamiliar, unusual, (n) foreigner, outsider, stranger, emigrant, (v) alienate, estrange; antonyms (adj) familiar, (n) native, citizen.
- **чужоземець 1**. alien; *synonyms* (*adj*) foreign, strange, unknown, extrinsic, exotic, extraneous, remote,

- unfamiliar, unusual, (n) foreigner, outsider, stranger, emigrant, (v) alienate, estrange; **antonyms** (adj) familiar, (n) native, citizen, **2**. stranger; **synonyms** (n) alien, newcomer, outlander; **antonyms** (n) associate, friend, pal.
- чуйний 1. charitable; synonyms (adi) merciful, benevolent, clement, gentle, kind, bountiful, generous, humane, kindly, lenient, liberal, magnanimous, philanthropic, compassionate, forbearing; antonyms (adj) unforgiving, mean, nasty, uncharitable, 2. alive; synonyms (adj) active, live, living, sensible, vivacious, animated, lively, responsive, aware, eager, acute, energetic, animate, awake, extant; antonyms (adj) dead, deceased, inanimate, 3. understanding; synonyms (n) intellect, mind, reason, appreciation, comprehension, agreement, apprehension, bargain, deal, judgment, sense, sympathy, arrangement, (v) intelligence, discernment; antonyms (n) ignorance, bewilderment, disbelief, 4. responsive; synonyms (adj) sensitive, amenable, receptive, susceptible, agreeable, delicate, impressionable, responsible, antiphonal, conscious, interested, perceptive, 5. sensitive; synonyms (adj) excitable, sore, tender, painful, emotional, irritable, nice, nervous, exquisite, considerate, keen, raw, refined, sharp, soft; antonyms (adj) insensitive, numb, hardhearted, tactless, thick-skinned.
- **чути** hear; *synonyms* (*v*) attend, discover, apprehend, understand, catch, examine, learn, listen, overhear, see, try, find, get, comprehend, gather.
- чутка rumour; *synonyms* (n) hearsay, (v) rumor, bruit. чуткий sensitive; *synonyms* (adj) delicate, excitable, sensible, sore, tender, painful, impressionable, emotional, gentle, irritable, perceptive, receptive, susceptible, nice, nervous; *antonyms* (adj) insensitive, numb, hardhearted, tactless, thick-skinned.
- чутливий 1. sensitive; synonyms (adi) delicate, excitable, sensible, sore, tender, painful, impressionable, emotional, gentle, irritable, perceptive, receptive, susceptible, nice, nervous; antonyms (adj) insensitive, numb, hardhearted, tactless, thick-skinned, 2. sensory; synonyms (adj) sensorial, sensational, sensitive, sensuous, arresting, sensor, acoustic, afferent, audible. audio-visual, auditory, aural, auricular, (n) sensorium, sensitory, 3. responsive; synonyms (adj) amenable, agreeable, responsible, antiphonal, conscious, interested, 4. feeling; synonyms (n) affection, feel, passion, emotion, atmosphere, belief, hunch, impression, intuition, mood, opinion, sense, sensitivity, sentiment, enthusiasm; *antonyms* (n) numbness, indifference, 5. nice; synonyms (adj) beautiful, dainty, fastidious, fine, good, kind, lovely, neat, likable, delicious, correct, decent, difficult, enjoyable, exact; antonyms (adj) unpleasant, horrible, **6**. sensible; synonyms (adi) reasonable, aware, judicious, perceptible, prudent, rational, sagacious, intelligent, sane, wise, appreciable, sage, logical, practical, sapient; antonyms (adj) foolish, absurd, crazy, idiotic, imprudent, ludicrous, mad, outrageous, reckless, ridiculous, silly, stupid, unreasonable, unwise, harebrained, 7. susceptible; synonyms (adj) responsive, subject, liable, pliable,

- susceptive, vulnerable, open, exposed, impressible, prone; *antonyms* (*adj*) resistant, unsusceptible.
- чутливість sensitivity; synonyms (n) sensibility, feeling, sensation, sense, sensitiveness, speed, acumen, appreciation, definess, dexterity, kindness, predisposition, receptiveness, sympathy, tact; antonym (n) insensitivity.
- чуттєвий sensitive; synonyms (adj) delicate, excitable, sensible, sore, tender, painful, impressionable, emotional, gentle, irritable, perceptive, receptive, susceptible, nice, nervous; antonyms (adj) insensitive, numb, hardhearted, tactless, thick-skinned.

### Ш

- **шаблон** routine; *synonyms* (*n*) round, habit, method, procedure, process, act, custom, (*adj*) everyday, ordinary, regular, common, customary, habitual, mundane, normal; *antonym* (*adj*) unusual.
- **шабля** sword; *synonyms* (*n*) blade, rapier, brand, steel, glaive, knife, brond, firebrand, fox, intoxicate, make, mark, marque, morglay, point.
- **IIIañóa** rubber; synonyms (n) caoutchouc, condom, eraser, galosh, overshoe, prophylactic, arctic, golosh, gumshoe, (v) rubberize.
- шалений 1. fierce; synonyms (adj) bitter, violent, acute, cruel, ferocious, brutal, furious, grim, savage, nasty, angry, ardent, atrocious, barbarous, boisterous; antonyms (adj) gentle, mild, 2. frantic; synonyms (adj) delirious, desperate, crazy, frenzied, excited, distraught, distracted, frenetic, raging, despairing, feverish, fierce, hysterical, mad, (v) wild; antonym (adj) calm, 3. mad; synonyms (adj) frantic, demented, foolish, insane, lunatic, irate, maniac, deranged, cross, enraged, infatuated, livid, nutty, possessed, (n) anger; antonyms (adj) sane, sensible, 4. wild; synonyms (adj) desert, waste, reckless, desolate, rude, stormy, untamed, giddy, rough, vehement, vicious, wanton, barbarian, barbaric, barren; antonyms (adj) orderly, domestic, manageable, cultivated, restrained, tame, 5. outrageous; synonyms (adj) exorbitant, inordinate, monstrous, ridiculous, offensive, gross, excessive, extravagant, absurd, awful, disgusting, dreadful, extortionate, hideous, horrid; antonym (adj) acceptable.
- **шаленіти** tear; *synonyms* (n) split, rupture, rent, (v) break, rip, crack, pull, rend, lacerate, race, run, rush, slit, rive, cleave.
- **шаленство** fury; *synonyms* (n) rage, anger, ferocity, exasperation, force, delirium, frenzy, furor, indignation, resentment, choler, craze, fierceness, furiousness, (adj) wrath
- **шампанське** champagne; *synonyms* (n) bubbly, blonde, (v) cocktail.
- шановний 1. respectable; *synonyms* (*adj*) reputable, considerable, decorous, decent, estimable, fair, good, honorable, proper, creditable, passable, becoming, honest, goodish, goodly; *antonym* (*adj*) disreputable, 2. honourable; *synonyms* (*adj*) ethical, moral, 3.

- reverend; *synonyms* (*adj*) venerable, revered, reverenced, (*n*) cleric, preacher, clergyman, parson, rector, priest, vicar, minister, reverence.
- **IIIAHC** chance; *synonyms* (*n*) hazard, fortune, opportunity, probability, venture, accident, break, contingency, fate, (*adj*) accidental, (*v*) gamble, adventure, risk, bet, befall; *antonyms* (*n*) predictability, (*adj*) deliberate, intentional, (*v*) design, plan.
- шанси odds; synonyms (n) advantage, chance, likelihood, possibility, probability, likeliness, chances, prospect, handicap, superiority, edge, (v) difference, dissension, misunderstanding, variance.
- шанування worship; synonyms (n) adoration, respect, adulation, veneration, cult, admiration, devotion, exaltation, homage, (v) praise, honor, revere, reverence, adore, glorify; antonym (v) hate.
- шанувати 1. honour; *synonyms* (n) award, accolade, innocence, awarding, (v) esteem, honor, respect, celebrate, observe, reward, comply, detect, discover, find, follow; *antonym* (v) dishonor, 2. respect (поважати); *synonyms* (n) homage, worship, heed, notice, account, consideration, deference, connection, (v) regard, admire, appreciate, estimation, keep, prize, reverence; *antonyms* (n) cheek, insolence, impudence, (v) disrespect, scorn, despise, disregard, humiliate.
- **ΙΙΙΑΠΚΑ** cap; *synonyms* (n) cover, bonnet, lid, capital, base, ceiling, crest, detonator, tip, closure, (ν) top, beat, limit, surpass, better.
- IIIap 1. layer; synonyms (n) coat, course, coating, cover, film, level, ply, stratum, crust, covering, floor, mantle, row, tier, (v) pile, 2. thickness; synonyms (n) density, consistency, width, layer, heaviness, body, breadth, bulk, compactness, crassitude, diameter, substance.
- **Шарм** charm; synonyms (n) allure, amulet, appeal, spell, attraction, conjure, (v) attract, captivate, bewitch, fascinate, enchant, entrance, beguile, capture, enamor; antonyms (n) repulsion, ugliness, (v) repel.
- **Haci** carriage; *synonyms* (n) attitude, transport, behavior, conveyance, air, coach, demeanor, deportment, gait, manner, mien, port, position, posture, (ν) bearing.
- **IIIaTpo** tent; *synonyms* (n) awning, camp, canopy, barracks, buckling, cover, dossil, shelter, tilt, design, gazebo, (ν) bivouac, dwell, encamp, hinder.
- **ιμαφα 1**. wardrobe; *synonyms* (n) closet, clothing, costume, cupboard, garb, clothes, apparel, dress, wear, garment, outfit, palliament, press, **2**. cupboard; *synonyms* (n) cabinet, buffet, commode, compartment, cranny, cub, nook, pigeonhole, bin, breakfront, bunker, cellaret, clothespress, cubicle, davenport.
- **max** shah; synonyms (n) king, caliph, czar, dictator, imaum, kaiser, sovereign, sultan, tsar, cazique, lama, mikado, mogul, padishah, tenno.
- шахрайство 1. fraud; synonyms (n) cheat, deceit, duplicity, counterfeit, deception, dishonesty, fake, sham, falsehood, cheating, con, faker, impostor, swindle, trick; antonym (n) honesty, 2. deception; synonyms (n) illusion, betrayal, delusion, pretense, bluff, artifice, fallacy, fraud, guile, hoax, imposture, lie, ruse, subterfuge, wile.
- **IIIAXTA** 1. mine; *synonyms* (*n*) dig, excavation, pit, fund, vein, shaft, (*v*) excavate, sap, burrow, exploit, bore,

- tunnel, undermine, (adj) delve, gouge, **2**. pit; synonyms (n) cavity, dent, hole, depression, grave, colliery, mine, stone, crater, fossa, (v) den, ditch, oppose, cave, (adj) hollow.
- **ШВЕЙЦАР** porter; *synonyms* (*n*) carrier, doorkeeper, gatekeeper, janitor, caretaker, doorman, ostiary, concierge, redcap.
- швидкий 1. quick; synonyms (adj) bright, prompt, active, agile, clever, hasty, intelligent, nimble, speedy, alert, alive, cursory, dexterous, expeditious, (adv) fast; antonyms (adj) slow, leisurely, dull, 2. fast; synonyms (adj) dissolute, firm, debauched, fixed, hurried, instant, quick, rapid, staunch, brisk, colorfast, (adv) soon, hard, close, (n) diet; antonyms (adj) sluggish, loose, (adv) slowly, (v) gorge, (n) binge, 3. rapid; synonyms (adj) swift, fleet, sudden, winged, express, immediate, impetuous, precipitous, abrupt, lively, precipitate, rash, ready, volant, instantaneous; antonym (adj) gradual, 4. fleet; synonyms (n) armada, float, marine, navy, (v) flit, fly, hurry, pass, dart, evanesce, fade, 5. swift; synonyms (adj) sprightly, unexpected, keen, brief, impulsive, meteoric, (n) cylinder, (adv) swiftly; antonym (adj) considered.
- **ШВИДКІСТЬ 1.** speed; *synonyms* (*n*) race, rapidity, velocity, celerity, (*v*) hasten, hurry, quicken, run, rush, accelerate, dash, dispatch, expedite, promote, shoot; *antonym* (*n*) slowness, **2.** velocity; *synonyms* (*n*) speed, swiftness, quickness, tempo, fleetness, haste, fastness, agility, (*v*) pace, rate, cadence, carriage, footfall, gait, port, **3.** rate; *synonyms* (*n*) price, worth, value, percentage, (*v*) assess, estimate, evaluate, appreciate, appraise, compute, count, calculate, merit, put, rank.
- швидко 1. quickly; synonyms (adv) promptly, immediately, directly, early, quick, pronto, nimbly, apace, hastily, rapidly, readily, (adj) fast, shortly, forthwith, (n) instantly; antonyms (adv) slowly, gradually, permanently, 2. promptly; synonyms (adv) exactly, now, punctually, quickly, soon, swiftly, instantaneously, summarily, hurriedly, right, speedily; antonyms (adv) later, late, 3. fast; synonyms (adj) dissolute, firm, agile, debauched, fixed, hurried, instant, rapid, staunch, brisk, colorfast, dissipated, (adv) hard, close, (n) diet; antonyms (adj) sluggish, loose, (adv) slow, leisurely, (v) gorge, (n) binge, 4. swiftly; synonyms (adv) fleetly, swift, suddenly, 5. readily; synonyms (adv) lightly, easily, freely, gladly, cheerfully, eagerly, willingly, commonly, naturally, openly, (adj) smoothly, 6. quick (швидкий); synonyms (adj) bright, prompt, active, clever, hasty, intelligent, nimble, speedy, alert, alive, cursory, dexterous, expeditious, immediate, keen; antonym (adj) dull.
- **ШВИДКОЗШИВАЧ** file; *synonyms* (n) archive, document, list, procession, rank, record, roll, series, string, (v) order, rasp, register, scrape, abrade, arrange.
- швидше rather; *synonyms* (*adv*) quite, enough, fairly, pretty, moderately, considerably, instead, kinda, preferably, relatively, somewhat, comparatively, reasonably, sooner; *antonym* (*adv*) extremely.
- **шворінь** bolt; *synonyms* (*n*) arrow, dash, pin, catch, (*v*) bar, abscond, gobble, latch, lock, escape, decamp,

- devour, fasten, gulp, (adv) bang; antonyms (v) nibble, unbolt. unlock.
- **шельма** bastard; *synonyms* (*n*) whoreson, scoundrel, cad, mongrel, (*adj*) illegitimate, spurious, fake, misbegotten, phony, adulterate, bastardly, bogus, false, natural, phoney; *antonym* (*n*) legitimate.
- **шельф** shelf (полиця); *synonyms* (n) ledge, rack, bank, flat, projection, board, frame, shallows, stand, support, bench, bracket, breakers, (adj) shallow.
- **ΙΠΕΠΙΤ** Whisper; *synonyms* (n) buzz, hum, rustle, breath, trace, undertone, rumor, (ν) murmur, breathe, mumble, hint, suggestion, hiss, inkling, innuendo; *antonym* (ν) shout.
- **Шепотіти** whisper; *synonyms* (*n*) buzz, hum, rustle, breath, trace, undertone, rumor, (*v*) murmur, breathe, mumble, hint, suggestion, hiss, inkling, innuendo; *antonym* (*v*) shout.
- **шеренга** file; *synonyms* (*n*) archive, document, list, procession, rank, record, roll, series, string, (*v*) order, rasp, register, scrape, abrade, arrange.
- шерсть 1. wool; *synonyms* (*n*) fleece, fur, coat, hair, woolen, woollen, yarn, fiber, pelt, sheepskin, strand, string, thread, hide, mane, 2. hair (волосся); *synonyms* (*n*) fuzz, down, hairbreadth, haircloth, locks, pile, coiffure, (*adj*) brush, clipping, driblet.
- **шерстяний** woollen; *synonyms* (n) woolen, wool, fleece.
- **ιμεφ** chief; synonyms (adj) head, principal, cardinal, capital, arch, central, essential, first, main, (n) administrator, boss, captain, executive, leader, paramount; antonyms (adj) minor, associate, secondary.
- шеф-кухар chef; synonyms (n) cook, baker.
- **ΙΠΕΦCTBO** patronage; *synonyms* (*n*) support, backing, clientele, condescension, favor, trade, assistance, aid, auspices, championship, countenance, help, business, (*ν*) keep, sustain.
- **шибениця** tree (дерево); *synonyms* (*n*) gallows, gibbet, stem, house, tribe, hierarchy, landmark, lentisk, ranking, trunk, filler, (*v*) corner, collar.
- шибка glass (скло); synonyms (n) pane, bottle, drink, bowl, cup, goblet, chalice, glassful, spyglass, telescope, tumbler, window, (v) glaze, (adj) ice.
- шийка 1. neck (шия); synonyms (n) throat, cervix, neckline, lapel, beard, (v) pet, cut, love, manage, kiss, behead, bang, bed, (adj) stricture, wasp, 2. nick; synonyms (n) notch, mark, chip, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (v) dent, steal, hack, indent, slash.
- шикуватися rank; synonyms (n) range, place, file, gradation, line, degree, quality, (v) arrange, order, class, classify, grade, position, array, group; antonym (adj) fresh.
- **шина** 1. bus (автобус); *synonyms* (*n*) automobile, autobus, car, coach, vehicle, busbar, charabanc, motorbus, omnibus, 2. tyre; *synonyms* (*n*) tire, band, baldric, belt, girdle, girth, wheel, zodiac, zone.
- шинка ham; synonyms (n) gammon, village, actor, dorp, hamfatter, kraal, amateur, beef, chicken, hamlet, hand, jambon, (adj) affected, conceited, (v) act.

- **ШИНОК** pub; *synonyms* (n) bar, pothouse, barroom, inn, saloon, taphouse, ginmill, lounge, drinkery, gashouse.
- ширина 1. width; synonyms (n) breadth, extent, latitude, length, size, wideness, broadness, amplitude, dimension, distance, thickness, measurement, area, depth, height; antonym (n) thinness, 2. breadth; synonyms (n) scope, width, spread, stretch, span, abundance, expanse, magnitude, range, richness, scale, space, comprehensiveness; antonym (n) narrowness.
- **IIIIPMa** Screen; *synonyms* (n) shade, blind, riddle, disguise, partition, veil, guard, (v) cover, shield, conceal, hide, mask, protect, shelter, cloak.
- широкий 1. vast; synonyms (adj) huge, immense, large, spacious, boundless, colossal, enormous, extensive, gigantic, great, immeasurable, wide, unlimited, big, broad; antonyms (adj) limited, narrow, cramped, small, tiny, 2. wide; synonyms (adj) roomy, comprehensive, ample, vast, capacious, expanded, extended, full, open, sweeping, deep, expansive, liberal, thick, blanket; antonyms (adj) thin, restricted, 3. broad; synonyms (adj) general, free, inclusive, tolerant, widespread, universal, coarse, complete, fat, gross, indelicate, loose, plain, (n) female, mere; antonym (adj) specific, 4. big (великий); synonyms (adj) major, heavy, important, significant, sturdy, generous, adult, bad, burly, considerable, hefty, high, magnanimous, momentous, noble; antonyms (adj) little, puny, 5. extensive; synonyms (adj) commodious, copious, long, detailed, massive, voluminous, abundant, elaborate, profound, exhaustive, grand, diffuse, far-reaching, lengthy, prevalent; antonyms (adj) minor, partial, short.
- широко 1. widely; synonyms (adv) wide, extensively, far, generally, greatly, largely, abroad, broadly, astray; antonym (adv) briefly, 2. wide; synonyms (adj) broad, spacious, roomy, comprehensive, extensive, large, ample, vast, capacious, expanded, extended, full, open, sweeping, big; antonyms (adj) narrow, thin, restricted, 3. broadly; synonyms (adv) widely, usually, effectively, immensely, lengthily, loosely, solidly, thickly, basically, expansively, heftily, mostly, powerfully, slackly, sturdily, 4. abroad; synonyms (adv) away, afield, forth, farther, further, yonder, elsewhere, forward, (adj) overseas, out, distant, completely, off, (v) spread, lost, 5. extensively; synonyms (adv) amply, appreciably, considerably, drastically, much, notably, radically, significantly, substantially, very, commonly, interminably.
- **широта** width; *synonyms* (n) breadth, extent, latitude, length, size, wideness, broadness, amplitude, dimension, distance, thickness, measurement, area, depth, height; *antonym* (n) thinness.
- **IIIIITI** stitch; *synonyms* (*n*) twinge, pang, cramp, (*v*) sew, seam, baste, crick, embroider, suture, tack, articulation, commissure, gore, gusset, (*adj*) tie; *antonym* (*v*) unpick.
- шифр code; *synonyms* (n) cipher, charter, law, act, key, rule, codex, canon, constitution, regulation, (v) cypher, encode, encipher, encrypt.
- шия neck; synonyms (n) throat, cervix, neckline, lapel, beard, (v) pet, cut, love, manage, kiss, behead, bang, bed, (adj) stricture, wasp.
- шістдесят sixty; synonyms (adj) lx, threescore, (n) lux.

- **ΙΠΙ΄CT** SİX; *synonyms* (n) sise, sixer, hexad, sestet, sextet, sextuplet, ace, assize, bigness, bulk, eight, jack, king, knave, magnitude.
- шкала scale; synonyms (n) flake, gamut, degree, graduation, measure, yardstick, rate, chip, (v) ascend, climb, gauge, mount, weigh, rise, (adj) balance; antonym (v) descend.
- **шкаралупа** shell; *synonyms* (*n*) peel, rind, bullet, case, casing, sheath, bark, carcass, crust, shot, (*v*) bomb, bombard, husk, pod, blast.
- шкідливий 1. harmful; synonyms (adj) baneful, destructive, detrimental, disadvantageous, hurtful, injurious, noxious, dangerous, damaging, deleterious, evil, maleficent, adverse, bad, baleful; antonyms (adj) harmless, healthy, safe, helpful, 2. adverse; synonyms (adj) contrary, unfavorable, harmful, hostile, untoward, adversary, averse, counter, inimical, negative, repugnant, antagonistic, contradictory, disastrous, (n) opposite; antonym (adj) favorable, 3. evil; synonyms (adj) corrupt, criminal, ill, wicked, depraved, malign, sinister, vicious, (n) damage, adversity, detriment, disaster, depravity, malice, mischief; antonyms (adj) kindhearted, (n) good, goodness, righteousness.
- шкільний school (школа); synonyms (n) academy, class, sect, college, herd, shoal, swarm, (v) educate, instruct, train, coach, cultivate, discipline, edify, teach.
- **μικίπερ** skipper; *synonyms* (n) captain, commander, master, head, leader, commodore, lieutenant, (ν) navigate.
- **IIIKipa 1**. skin; *synonyms* (n) peel, hide, coating, fur, hull, rind, shell, crust, integument, pelt, (v) pare, bark, scrape, excoriate, flay, **2**. leather; *synonyms* (n) fleece, skin, buckskin, fell, pigskin, (v) drub, thrash, thresh, hit, **3**. hide; *synonyms* (v) conceal, disguise, obscure, bury, cloak, mask, shelter, ambush, muffle, camouflage, (n) cover, coat, veil, cloud, (adj) darken; *antonyms* (v) reveal, show, expose, express.
- шкода 1. damage; synonyms (n) blemish, injury, wound, loss, cost, detriment, disadvantage, impairment, (v) harm, hurt, abuse, injure, afflict, disfigure, (adj) impair; antonyms (n) service, (v) conserve, enhance, repair, bolster, 2. harm; synonyms (n) evil, bruise, disservice, wrong, disaster, ill, mischief, misfortune, (v) damage, maim, poison, ravage, endamage, mar, mistreat; antonym (v) benefit, 3. injury; synonyms (n) grievance, affront, contusion, lesion, concussion, outrage, strain, indignity, defect, cut, destruction, injustice, insult, laceration, (v) crime; antonyms (n) ability, reparation, 4. ill; synonyms (adj) bad, sick, ailing, diseased, unhealthy, adverse, harmful, nauseous, (adv) badly, poorly, sickly, amiss, (n) complaint, ailment, calamity; antonyms (adj) healthy, (adv) well, 5. disadvantage; synonyms (n) deprivation, inconvenience, limitation, failing, fault, flaw, liability, snag, awkwardness, penalty; antonyms (n) bonus, value, (v) advantage, 6, hurt; synonyms (v) pain, ail, anguish, grieve, offend, sting, burn, break. chafe, (adj) upset, damaged, (n) ache, distress, agony, discomfort; antonyms (v) encourage, (adj) uninjured, unhurt, 7. pity; synonyms (n) compassion, commiseration, mercy, condolence, clemency, pathos, remorse, shame, sympathy, comfort, feeling,

- benevolence, (v) commiserate, compassionate, sympathize; *antonym* (n) blame.
- **IUKOJUTU 1.** harm; *synonyms* (n) evil, hurt, detriment, bruise, wound, disadvantage, injury, disservice, (v) damage, abuse, blemish, injure, maim, poison, ravage; *antonyms* (v) enhance, benefit, **2.** blast; *synonyms* (n) bang, slam, burst, gust, (v) attack, blare, blight, bomb, boom, detonate, roar, smash, blow, (*adj*) discharge, explosion, **3.** damage; *synonyms* (n) loss, cost, impairment, price, ruin, tear, wreck, wrong, (v) harm, afflict, disfigure, mar, mutilate, spoil, (*adj*) impair; *antonyms* (n) service, (v) conserve, repair, bolster.
- **IIIKOJA** school; *synonyms* (*n*) academy, class, sect, college, herd, shoal, swarm, (*v*) educate, instruct, train, coach, cultivate, discipline, edify, teach.
- школяр pupil (учень); synonyms (n) follower, learner, student, scholar, apprentice, disciple, trainee, schoolchild, novice, adherent, tyro, ward, beginner, educatee.
- **IIIKYPA 1.** skin; *synonyms* (n) peel, hide, coating, fur, hull, rind, shell, crust, integument, pelt, (v) pare, bark, scrape, excoriate, flay, **2.** fell; *synonyms* (v) chop, cut, drop, floor, ax, level, down, demolish, (*adj*) barbarous, cruel, prostrate, brutal, fierce, savage, (n) skin.
- шлагбаум bar (бар); synonyms (n) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (v) ban, block, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose; antonyms (v) permit, allow.
- шліфувати polish; *synonyms* (n) finish, gloss, burnish, gentility, cultivation, elegance, refinement, shine, civilization, (v) furbish, glaze, rub, civilize, clean, cultivate.
- **шлунковий** gastric; *synonyms* (*adj*) stomachal, stomachic, abdominal, cordial.
- **шлунок** 1. stomach; *synonyms* (*n*) abdomen, appetite, belly, breadbasket, inclination, (*v*) accept, brook, abide, bear, endure, stand, suffer, take, tolerate, (*adj*) digest, 2. belly; *synonyms* (*n*) stomach, inside, bowels, intestines, waist, entrails, gut, paunch, venter, (*v*) balloon, swell, billow, bloat, bulge.
- **шлюб** 1. marriage; *synonyms* (n) wedding, matrimony, espousal, nuptial, union, wedlock, alliance, coupling, bond, nuptials, (*adj*) bridal, (v) match; *antonyms* (n) divorce, separation, 2. wedding; *synonyms* (n) marriage, (*adj*) matrimonial.
- III. Поз lock; synonyms (n) curl, hook, padlock, (v) bolt, bar, close, latch, engage, fasten, hug, hold, interlock, secure, shut, (adj) hair; antonyms (v) unlock, open.
- шлюпка boat; *synonyms* (n) yacht, scull, craft, dinghy, ship, vessel, vehicle, shallop, schooner, sailboat, bateau, bowl, sauceboat, truck, (v) cruise.
- **III.ππx 1**. Way (ДОРОГА); *synonyms* (n) course, method, path, passage, road, route, track, custom, direction, form, manner, means, style, fashion, habit, **2**. road; *synonyms* (n) way, avenue, highway, line, approach, roadway, street, thoroughfare, walk, access, artery, itinerary, pathway, trail, (adj) traveling, **3**. path; *synonyms* (n) orbit, lane, alley, corridor, trace, aisle, range, footstep, boulevard, conduit, passageway, run, tread, wake, (v) trade, **4**. channel; *synonyms* (n) canal, groove, drain, duct, trough, waterway, aqueduct, link, hollow, agent, (v) carry, conduct, convey, bring, canalize, **5**. doorway:

- **synonyms** (n) door, entrance, entry, entryway, driveway, gate, gateway, lobby, opening, porch, cellarway, threshold; **antonym** (n) exit, **6**. avenue; **synonyms** (n) channel, outlet, **7**. passage; **synonyms** (n) gangway, hall, journey, citation, excerpt, extract, movement, paragraph, pass, section, vestibule, voyage, article, clause, crossing.
- **ШЛЯХЕТНИЙ** noble; *synonyms* (*adj*) dignified, imposing, magnificent, glorious, distinguished, elevated, exalted, generous, high, impressive, majestic, patrician, (*n*) grand, excellent, (*v*) great; *antonyms* (*adj*) lower-class, selfish, shameful, humble, dishonorable, lowly.
- **ШЛЯХЕТНІСТЬ** nobility; *synonyms* (n) aristocracy, greatness, dignity, magnanimousness, noblesse, gentry, magnificence, goodness, rank, birth, elite, gallantry, (adj) grandeur, generosity, magnanimity; *antonym* (n) pettiness.
- **IIIMATOK 1.** piece; *synonyms* (*n*) cut, division, fragment, part, article, component, composition, hunk, lump, patch, bit, block, chunk, coin, constituent, **2.** bar (бар); *synonyms* (*n*) barricade, band, stop, line, pub, snag, (*v*) ban, bolt, exclude, obstruct, arrest, balk, dam, foreclose, confine; *antonyms* (*v*) permit, allow, **3.** scrap; *synonyms* (*n*) fight, morsel, brawl, remnant, chip, clash, end, junk, piece, remainder, conflict, crumb, (*v*) quarrel, row, discard; *antonym* (*v*) keep.
- **IIMATO40K 1.** Scrap; *synonyms* (n) fight, morsel, brawl, remnant, bit, chip, clash, end, junk, piece, remainder, conflict, (v) quarrel, row, (adj) fragment; *antonym* (v) keep, **2.** bit; *synonyms* (n) crumb, atom, drop, fleck, moment, part, portion, shred, snatch, taste, trace, whit, (v) curb, scrap, scantling.
- **IIIHYP** cord; *synonyms* (n) band, string, bond, tie, twine, tape, lace, rope, thread, whipcord, yarn, leash, fiber, cable, (v) knot.
- **IIIHYPOK** lace; *synonyms* (n) edging, lacing, net, galloon, (ν) braid, enlace, entwine, interlace, bind, rope, tie, knot, tat, knit, (adi) string.
- **IIIOB** stitch; synonyms (n) twinge, pang, cramp, (v) sew, seam, baste, crick, embroider, suture, tack, articulation, commissure, gore, gusset, (adj) tie; antonym (v) unpick.
- шовк silk; synonyms (adj) silky, down, velure, velvet. шовковий silk; synonyms (adj) silky, down, velure, velvet
- **ΙΙΙΟΚ** shock; *synonyms* (n) blow, daze, impact, collision, outrage, surprise, concussion, (v) jar, offend, revolt, startle, appall, clash, disgust, dismay; *antonym* (v) comfort.
- шоколад chocolate; synonyms (n) brown, bonbon, cocoa, coffee, candy, sweet, (adj) brunette, tan, auburn, bay, castaneous, chestnut, cinnamon, dapple, (v) tea.
- **шоколадний** chocolate; *synonyms* (*n*) brown, bonbon, cocoa, coffee, candy, sweet, (*adj*) brunette, tan, auburn, bay, castaneous, chestnut, cinnamon, dapple, (*v*) tea.
- шокувати shock; synonyms (n) blow, daze, impact, collision, outrage, surprise, concussion, (v) jar, offend, revolt, startle, appall, clash, disgust, dismay; antonym (v) comfort.
- **шолом** helmet; *synonyms* (*n*) casque, helm, hood, cowl, hat, (*v*) headpiece, pickelhaube, armor, aegis, apron, backplate, brains, breastplate, brigandine, buckler.

- **шорти** shorts; *synonyms* (*n*) pants, knickers, drawers, trunks, underwear, bloomers, boxers, underdrawers.
- **IIIoce** highway; *synonyms* (n) road, highroad, way, course, path, route, street, thoroughfare.
- **IIIOy** show; synonyms (v) present, broadcast, expose, guide, indicate, parade, demonstrate, disclose, evidence, (n) display, appearance, exhibit, produce, ostentation, presentation; antonyms (v) conceal, disprove, hide.
- **moфep** driver; *synonyms* (*n*) coachman, postboy, club, chaser, commuter, hoistman, pursuer, spanker.
- **IIIIIara** Sword; *synonyms* (*n*) blade, rapier, brand, steel, glaive, knife, brond, firebrand, fox, intoxicate, make, mark, marque, morglay, point.
- шпаргалка cab; synonyms (n) cabriolet, taxi, taxicab, car, fly, hack, droshki, drosky, growler, vehicle, omnibus, drudge, hacker, jade, nag.
- **IIITHIFYH** spy; *synonyms* (*n*) scout, detective, mole, notice, patrol, emissary, (*v*) see, espy, snoop, discern, discover, observe, perceive, descry, behold.
- **ШПИЛЬ** top; *synonyms* (*adj*) maximum, (*n*) crown, peak, acme, apex, crest, cover, height, pinnacle, summit, (*v*) best, cap, exceed, head, outdo; *antonyms* (*adj*) worst, (*n*) hottom base nadir
- **шпилька** pin; *synonyms* (n) needle, nail, clip, peg, axle, brooch, broach, nog, bolt, button, leg, (v) tack, clasp, fix, fasten
- шпиталь hospital (лікарня); *synonyms* (n) infirmary, home, institution, sanitarium, sickroom, spital, inn, sickbay, (adi) hospitable.
- **IIIIOPA** heel; *synonyms* (n) blackguard, counter, dog, cad, scoundrel, shoe, sole, villain, bounder, (v) list, lean.
- шрифт print; synonyms (n) imprint, mark, impression, engraving, copy, lettering, picture, facsimile, letterpress, reproduction, (v) impress, photograph, issue, engrave, stamp.
- **IIITAÓ 1.** headquarters; *synonyms* (n) seat, base, residence, center, office, abode, address, **2.** staff; *synonyms* (n) cane, club, post, employees, faculty, personnel, rod, mace, baton, brace, stave, court, (v) crutch, prop, stick.
- **штаб-квартира** headquarters; *synonyms* (n) seat, base, residence, center, office, abode, address.
- IIITAMII 1. stamp; synonyms (n) mark, seal, brand, impression, cachet, emblem, (v) imprint, print, cast, impress, trample, punch, characterize, shape, note, 2. die; synonyms (v) decease, dead, death, depart, expire, fall, go, pass, conk, croak, break, cease, fail, (n) dice, matrix, 3. mark; synonyms (n) evidence, score, character, heed, sign, feature, badge, check, indication, (v) blemish, distinguish, grade, label, differentiate, (adj) notice, 4. punch; synonyms (n) jab, drill, cuff, die, wallop, blow, dig, knock, (v) poke, hit, prick, beat, perforate, stab, thrust.
- IIITAMIYBATU 1. impress; synonyms (v) imprint, affect, mark, move, print, inscribe, instill, touch, emboss, dent, inculcate, strike, (n) stamp, impression, press, 2. punch; synonyms (n) jab, drill, cuff, die, wallop, blow, dig, knock, (v) poke, hit, prick, beat, perforate, stab, thrust, 3. press; synonyms (n) jam, closet, (v) crush, crowd, force, squeeze, pack, coerce, compress, exhort, mash, push,

- urge, clasp, (*adj*) constrain, **4**. mark; *synonyms* (*n*) brand, evidence, score, character, heed, sign, feature, badge, check, (*v*) blemish, characterize, distinguish, grade, label, (*adj*) notice.
- **ШΤαΗΓα** weight; *synonyms* (n) load, burden, charge, consequence, heaviness, importance, pressure, significance, stress, ballast, bias, import, influence, moment, (v) gravity; *antonym* (n) triviality.
- **ШТАНИ** trousers; *synonyms* (*n*) pants, breeches, knickers, pantaloons, trowsers, drawers, bloomers, inexpressibles, smallclothes, trossers, trouse, unmentionables, underpants.
- IIITAT 1. staff; synonyms (n) cane, club, post, employees, faculty, personnel, rod, mace, baton, brace, stave, court, (v) crutch, prop, stick, 2. state (держава); synonyms (n) nation, position, say, country, kingdom, show, place, (v) declare, expound, express, mention, affirm, allege, announce, (adj) national; antonyms (v) deny, (adj) private, 3. personnel; synonyms (n) staff, workers, workforce, force, troops, effect, forcefulness, organization, people, body, corps, department, group, helpers, members.
- **IIITATUB** rack; *synonyms* (n) manger, wrack, bracket, cage, stand, boot, ledge, (v) torture, excruciate, torment, afflict, agonize, pain, bedevil, crucify.
- штатний staff; synonyms (n) cane, club, post, employees, faculty, personnel, rod, mace, baton, brace, stave, court, (v) crutch, prop, stick.
- **ШТатський** civilian; *synonyms* (*adj*) civil, (*n*) citizen, national, carpetmonger, chamberer, chambermaid, civilist, inhabitant, jurist, layman, legist, resident, voter, advocate, commoner; *antonyms* (*adj*) military, (*n*) serviceman.
- **штемпель 1**. impress; *synonyms* (*v*) imprint, affect, mark, move, print, inscribe, instill, touch, emboss, dent, inculcate, strike, (*n*) stamp, impression, press, **2**. punch; *synonyms* (*n*) jab, drill, cuff, die, wallop, blow, dig, knock, (*v*) poke, hit, prick, beat, perforate, stab, thrust.
- **IIITOBXAHHЯ 1.** pushing; *synonyms* (v) meddlesome, (*adj*) aggressive, enterprising, pushful, pushy, ambitious, forward, (n) push, promotion, **2.** push; *synonyms* (n) press, thrust, jolt, poke, (v) drive, impel, crowd, force, jab, jostle, nudge, prod, jam, rush, boost; *antonyms* (v) pull, drag, haul.
- **IIITOBXATU 1.** push; *synonyms* (n) press, thrust, jolt, poke, (v) drive, impel, crowd, force, jab, jostle, nudge, prod, jam, rush, boost; *antonyms* (v) pull, drag, haul, **2**. thrust; *synonyms* (v) punch, ram, dig, squeeze, throw, stick, plunge, cram, hurl, (n) push, stab, shove, cast, blow, impetus.
- **IIITOBXHYTU** push; *synonyms* (*n*) press, thrust, jolt, poke, (*v*) drive, impel, crowd, force, jab, jostle, nudge, prod, jam, rush, boost; *antonyms* (*v*) pull, drag, haul.
- IIITOpa blind; synonyms (adj) sightless, undiscerning, (v) bedazzle, daze, dazzle, obscure, (n) screen, curtain, shutter, awning, drape, trick, veil, camouflage, cheat; antonym (adj) sighted.
- шторм storm (буря); *synonyms* (n) tempest, attack, shower, blizzard, burst, gust, hurricane, (v) rage, rush, assault, fume, hail, charge, bluster, invade.

- штормовий troubled; synonyms (adj) concerned, disturbed, anxious, distressed, solicitous, apprehensive, disconcerted, uncomfortable, uneasy, upset, worried, restless, distraught, bothered, perturbed; antonyms (adj) untroubled, composed, unconcerned.
- IIITpaф 1. fine; synonyms (adj) delicate, agreeable, dainty, brave, capital, elegant, excellent, nice, thin, delightful, acute, admirable, alright, (n) penalty, (v) punish; antonyms (adj) poor, thick, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, wide, 2. penalty; synonyms (n) mulct, fine, forfeit, forfeiture, amercement, judgment, handicap, penalization, penance, sentence, pain, conviction, punishment, sanction, (v) condemnation.
- штрафувати 1. assess; synonyms (v) appraise, evaluate, appreciate, value, estimate, gauge, mark, measure, review, tax, demand, regard, analyze, assay, calculate, 2. fine; synonyms (adj) delicate, agreeable, dainty, brave, capital, elegant, excellent, nice, thin, delightful, acute, admirable, alright, (n) penalty, (v) punish; antonyms (adj) poor, thick, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, wide.
- **ШТУКа** piece; *synonyms* (*n*) cut, division, fragment, part, article, component, composition, hunk, lump, patch, bit, block, chunk, coin, constituent.
- **штукатурка** plaster; *synonyms* (*n*) mortar, cement, paste, gum, glue, bandage, cataplasm, (*v*) coat, daub, stucco, paint, affix, poultice, face, smear.
- IIITYPM 1. assault; synonyms (n) attack, aggression, rush, violence, charge, onset, raid, rape, thrust, battery, offensive, (v) assail, storm, invade, violate; antonyms (n) defense, (v) defend, 2. storm (буря); synonyms (n) tempest, shower, blizzard, burst, gust, hurricane, explosion, blast, (v) rage, assault, fume, hail, bluster, rave, (adj) riot.
- штурмувати storm (буря); synonyms (n) tempest, attack, shower, blizzard, burst, gust, hurricane, (v) rage, rush, assault, fume, hail, charge, bluster, invade.
- штучний 1. artificial; synonyms (adj) affected, theatrical, bogus, fake, false, feigned, forced, mannered, phony, strained, unnatural, unreal, hypocritical, precious, stiff; antonyms (adj) natural, genuine, real, 2. synthetic; synonyms (adj) artificial, ersatz, simulated, synthetical, celluloid, semisynthetic, 3. made; synonyms (adj) finished, built, ready, constructed, formed, prepared, synthetic, bound, complete, completed, ended, fictitious, rabid, through.
- **ШУКАТИ** 1. search; *synonyms* (*n*) hunt, pursuit, examination, exploration, inquire, inquiry, inspection, study, (*v*) grope, ransack, rummage, pry, examine, explore, forage, **2**. seek; *synonyms* (*v*) search, attempt, endeavor, look, aspire, beg, pursue, quest, investigate, research, follow, demand, essay, request, (*n*) ask, **3**. pick; *synonyms* (*v*) clean, gather, harvest, opt, break, (*n*) alternative, elite, best, choice, option, selection, (*adj*) cream, select, mattock, flower.
- **шуліка** kite; *synonyms* (*n*) parachute, airplane, epistle, former, letter, slip, (*v*) scram.
- IIIYM 1. noise; *synonyms* (n) clatter, clamor, hubbub, racket, sound, din, disturbance, echo, uproar, buzz, clang, commotion, crack, crash, (v) fame; *antonyms* (n) silence, quiet, 2. row; *synonyms* (n) altercation, line, file, rank, squabble, wrangle, clash, dispute, (v) quarrel,

- brawl, fight, argue, bicker, order, (adj) fracas; antonyms (n) agreement, (v) agree, 3. Toar; synonyms (n) boom, thunder, shout, bark, noise, peal, (v) bellow, cry, bawl, howl, blare, call, holler, rave, (adj) bluster; antonym (v) whisper, 4. sound; synonyms (v) ring, chime, fast, blow, (adj) reasonable, complete, healthy, fit, good, just, rational, right, sane, sensible, robust; antonyms (adj) illogical, unsound, confused.
- шумливий noisy; *synonyms* (*adj*) disorderly, boisterous, clamorous, loud, vociferous, blatant, rowdy, shrill, strident, tumultuous, turbulent, vocal, bustling, confused, harsh; *antonyms* (*adj*) quiet, peaceful, silent, calm, tranquil.
- шумний noisy; synonyms (adj) disorderly, boisterous, clamorous, loud, vociferous, blatant, rowdy, shrill, strident, tumultuous, turbulent, vocal, bustling, confused, harsh; antonyms (adj) quiet, peaceful, silent, calm, tranquil.
- IIIYMHO loudly; synonyms (adv) aloud, forte, loud, noisily, vociferously, clamorously; antonyms (adv) quietly, softly.
- **шухляда** drawer; *synonyms* (n) draftsman, draughtsman, till, commode, engraver, case, locker, closet, bin, buffet, bunker, cellaret, clothespress, cupboard, draftsperson.

# Ш

- **щадити** spare; *synonyms* (*adj*) reserve, slender, excess, save, slight, additional, lean, slim, thin, bare, (*v*) free, meager, exempt, (*n*) extra, backup.
- **щасливий 1.** happy; *synonyms* (*adj*) fortunate, felicitous, contented, gay, buoyant, content, gleeful, gratified, blithe, bright, carefree, cheerful, cheery, (*n*) auspicious, blessed; *antonyms* (*adj*) unhappy, sad, dejected, depressed, miserable, sorrowful, **2.** lucky; *synonyms* (*adj*) favorable, propitious, prosperous, favourable, successful, flourishing, advantageous, chance, good, providential, encouraging, promising, (*n*) happy, favored; *antonyms* (*adj*) unlucky, hapless, ill-fated, unfortunate, **3.** fortunate; *synonyms* (*adj*) lucky, fortuitous, well, golden, advantaged, desirable, hopeful.
- **щасливо 1**. happily; *synonyms* (*adv*) fortunately, gladly, blissfully, cheerfully, joyfully, joyously, luckily, merrily, providentially, blithely, brightly, gayly; *antonyms* (*adv*) sadly, unhappily, unfortunately, (*v*) miserably, **2**. fortunately; *synonyms* (*adv*) happily, favorably, fortuitously; *antonyms* (*adv*) disastrously, unluckily.
- **щастя 1.** happiness; synonyms (n) delight, enjoyment, blessedness, bliss, cheerfulness, contentment, ecstasy, felicity, gladness, luck, merriment, welfare, beatitude, joy, rapture; antonyms (n) unhappiness, sadness, despair, grief, misery, dissatisfaction, 2. luck; synonyms (n) chance, fortune, accident, destiny, fate, hazard, lot, advantage, hap, portion, coincidence, circumstances; antonym (n) misfortune, 3. chance; synonyms (n) opportunity, probability, venture, break, contingency, random, turn, (adj) accidental, (v) gamble, adventure,

- risk, bet, befall, happen, bump; *antonyms* (n) predictability, (adj) deliberate, intentional, (v) design, plan, **4**. fortune; *synonyms* (n) estate, fluke, means, abundance, assets, doom, riches, wealth, blessing, substance, affluence, prosperity, treasure, capital, mint.
- III. 1. yet; synonyms (adv) however, but, notwithstanding, even, nonetheless, though, besides, further, hitherto, eventually, unless, always, (conj) nevertheless, (n) already, (v) still, 2. else; synonyms (adv) also, moreover, (n) threat, (pron) another, (adj) more, other, new, fresh, 3. more; synonyms (adv) beyond, over, (adj) additional, better, extra, larger, exceed, greater, (prep) above; antonyms (adv) fewer, less, (adj) inferior, 4. still; synonyms (adj) calm, pacify, peaceful, silence, quiescent, serene, silent, appease, (n) hush, (v) quiet, assuage, compose, lull, soothe, allay; antonyms (adj) moving, effervescent, fizzy, windy, (n) noisy.
- **щебінь** metal; *synonyms* (n) ore, admixture, aggregate, alloy, clemency, favor, grace, honor, mercy, rock, character, courage, temper.
- шедрий 1. generous; synonyms (adj) ample, full, abundant, benevolent, copious, bountiful, charitable, fair, flush, kind, liberal, spacious, rich, benign, (n) free; antonyms (adj) stingy, meager, mean, measly, miserly, small, tightfisted, avaricious, greedy, ungenerous, 2. liberal; synonyms (adj) generous, handsome, big, large, bounteous, broad, giving, tolerant, lavish, easy, bighearted, enlightened, freehanded, munificent, noble; antonyms (adj) strict, oppressive, totalitarian, intolerant, (n) conservative, 3. charitable; synonyms (adj) merciful, clement, gentle, humane, kindly, lenient, magnanimous, philanthropic, compassionate, forbearing, hospitable, altruistic, indulgent, understanding, unselfish; antonyms (adj) unforgiving, nasty, uncharitable.
- **щедрість** generosity; *synonyms* (n) charity, benevolence, bounty, liberality, bounteousness, favor, generousness, goodness, grace, hospitality, munificence, nobility, (adj) kindness, beneficence, largesse; *antonyms* (n) stinginess, greed, meanness, thrift.
- **шедро** largely; *synonyms* (*adv*) chiefly, generally, mostly, greatly, mainly, primarily, principally, amply, predominantly, overall.
- щелепа 1. chap; *synonyms* (*n*) fellow, person, blighter, crack, cranny, crevice, guy, lad, man, beau, scissure, chink, cleft, cuss, fella; *antonym* (*n*) woman, 2. jaw; *synonyms* (*n*) chin, jaws, (*v*) chatter, gossip, chat, gab, jabber, berate, chaffer, chew, confabulate, gabble, chide, lecture, (*adj*) clack.
- **щетина** hair (волосся); *synonyms* (n) fuzz, coat, down, fleece, fur, hairbreadth, haircloth, locks, pile, coiffure, (adj) brush, clipping, driblet.
- **щирий 1.** unaffected; *synonyms* (*adj*) simple, artless, sincere, genuine, natural, plain, real, unimpressed, ingenuous, honest, naive, unsophisticated, untouched, chaste, impervious; *antonym* (*adj*) affected, **2.** frank; *synonyms* (*adj*) candid, blunt, direct, downright, fair, forthright, hearty, open, straightforward, clear, bluff, exempt, free, outspoken, (*n*) frankfurter; *antonyms* (*adj*) dishonest, guarded, devious, **3.** genuine; *synonyms* (*adj*) actual, authentic, true, faithful, factual, unaffected.

- unfeigned, very, absolute, accurate, certain, earnest, intrinsic, legitimate, literal; *antonyms* (*adj*) bogus, fake, insincere, artificial, false, pretend, hypocritical, replica, **4**. honest; *synonyms* (*adj*) equitable, good, clean, decent, dependable, frank, guileless, heartfelt, just, reliable, righteous, trustworthy, upright, virtuous, ethical; *antonyms* (*adj*) corrupt, lying, misleading, disloyal, unwholesome, **5**. real; *synonyms* (*adj*) material, physical, concrete, positive, pure, native, right, substantial, tangible, essential, cordial, corporeal, effective, existent, (*adv*) actually; *antonyms* (*adj*) unreal, imaginary, apparent, deceptive, fantasy, imitation, insubstantial, mock, nominal.
- **IMPO 1.** genuinely; *synonyms* (*adv*) really, sincerely, truly, authentically, actually, honestly, naturally; *antonyms* (*adv*) falsely, insincerely, **2.** sincerely; *synonyms* (*adv*) simply, candidly, frankly, genuinely, earnestly, openly, seriously, directly, faithfully, heartily, ingenuously, unreservedly, artlessly, entirely; *antonym* (*adv*) dishonestly, **3.** frankly; *synonyms* (*adv*) aboveboard, bluntly, plainly, straight, straightforwardly, truthfully, (*adj*) freely; *antonym* (*adv*) hesitantly.
- **III.II** shield; *synonyms* (*n*) screen, shelter, buffer, armor, protection, shade, (*v*) cover, guard, safeguard, preserve, secure, defend, hide, protect, buckler; *antonym* (*v*) expose.
- **щиток** pad; *synonyms* (*n*) cushion, apartment, digs, wadding, (*v*) line, inflate, expand, bolster, stuff, wad, aggrandize, amplify, embroider, magnify, enlarge.
- щілина 1. chap; synonyms (n) fellow, person, blighter, crack, cranny, crevice, guy, lad, man, beau, scissure, chink, cleft, cuss, fella; antonym (n) woman, 2. gap; synonyms (n) break, fissure, aperture, chasm, clearance, difference, fracture, opening, vacancy, blank, disparity, disruption, hiatus, hole, (v) breach, 3. nick; synonyms (n) notch, mark, cut, chip, incision, score, scratch, arrest, gash, gouge, indentation, (v) dent, steal, hack, indent, 4. slot; synonyms (n) groove, place, gap, position, split, section, class, nick, partition, spot, track, compartment, group, (v) slit, rank.
- щільний 1. close; synonyms (adj) near, adjacent, nearby, accurate, tight, approximate, narrow, (v) compact, stop, conclude, (adv) by, about, (n) end, finish, conclusion; antonyms (adj) distant, airy, fresh, loose, far, (v) open, start, 2. compact; synonyms (adj) close, dense, compendious, concise, hard, (n) agreement, arrangement, contract, covenant, bargain, engagement, (v) compress, condense, consolidate, pack; antonyms (adj) sprawling, bulky, sparse, 3. dense; synonyms (adj) thick, crowded, deep, crass, dim, dull, heavy, impenetrable, solid, stupid, concentrated, dumb, firm, gross, lush; antonyms (adj) bright, insightful, clever, intelligent, readable, simple, 4. thick; synonyms (adj) opaque, slow, stocky, familiar, fat, intimate, muddy, obtuse, broad, populous, frequent, chummy, coarse, hazy, (n) midst; antonyms (adj) thin, diluted, fine, slight, transparent, 5. tight; synonyms (adj) mean, parsimonious, taut, secure, snug, tense, drunk, miserly, rigorous, sparing, stiff, strict, stringent, (v) fast, stingy; antonyms (adj) baggy, generous, slack, wide, (adv) loosely, 6. massive; synonyms (adj) large, gigantic, huge, big, enormous, great, immense,

- monumental, colossal, considerable, gargantuan, impressive, mammoth, monstrous, (v) substantial; *antonyms* (adj) tiny, small, insignificant, miniature.
- **щільність** density; *synonyms* (n) compactness, consistency, concentration, denseness, stupidity, firmness, solidity, massiveness, stand, crassitude, frequency, weight, absorption, assiduity, assiduousness; *antonym* (n) looseness.
- шільно 1. closely; synonyms (adv) tightly, close, narrowly, nearly, intimately, strictly, thickly, almost, accurately, attentively, carefully, exactly, intently, near, precisely; antonyms (adv) distantly, loosely, 2. tightly; synonyms (adv) firmly, fast, densely, firm, hard, abruptly, compactly, curtly, dead, inflexibly, severely, short, shortly, suddenly, (adj) nimbly; antonym (adv) insecurely, 3. tight; synonyms (adj) compact, mean, parsimonious, taut, secure, snug, tense, drunk, miserly, rigorous, sparing, stiff, strict, (v) narrow, stingy; antonyms (adj) loose, baggy, generous, slack, wide.
- шітка brush; *synonyms* (n) brushwood, clash, collision, conflict, copse, encounter, (v) broom, graze, sweep, touch, clean, kiss, rub, scour, (adi) rake.
- **щогла** post; *synonyms* (n) place, function, office, position, pillar, stake, attitude, berth, column, job, (v) mail, locate, base, enter, lay.
- щоденний 1. daily; synonyms (adj) journal, diurnal, everyday, regular, (n) newspaper, gazette, paper, tabloid,
  2. everyday; synonyms (adj) common, usual, customary, familiar, routine, accustomed, average, casual, commonplace, daily, frequent, habitual, humdrum, (v) ordinary, general; antonyms (adj) extraordinary, unusual, exquisite.
- **щоденник 1.** diary; *synonyms* (*n*) journal, calendar, agenda, daybook, annals, autobiography, chronicle, ephemeris, history, record, **2.** journal; *synonyms* (*n*) diary, book, magazine, newspaper, periodical, log, organ, paper, review, annual, (*adī*) daily, diurnal.
- **щодня** daily; *synonyms* (*adj*) journal, diurnal, everyday, regular, (*n*) newspaper, gazette, paper, tabloid.
- **щодо** about; *synonyms* (*prep*) encircling, for, encompassing, circa, concerning, (*adv*) around, approximately, almost, nearly, most, roughly, in, nearby, (*adj*) some, near; *antonyms* (*prep*) exactly, precisely.
- **щойно** just; *synonyms* (*adv*) exactly, hardly, newly, (*adj*) fair, right, correct, equitable, accurate, honest, impartial, barely, fit, good, reasonable, righteous; *antonyms* (*adj*) unfair, biased, wrong.
- щока 1. cheek; *synonyms* (n) audacity, boldness, brass, face, impertinence, nerve, gall, impudence, insolence, lip, mouth, daring, disrespect, effrontery, jowl; *antonym* (n) respect, 2. chap; *synonyms* (n) fellow, person, blighter, crack, cranny, crevice, guy, lad, man, beau, scissure, chink, cleft, cuss, fella; *antonym* (n) woman.
- **щомісяця** monthly; *synonyms* (*adj*) menstrual, mensal, periodic, (*n*) magazine, periodical, journal, bulletin, paper, publication, review, weekly, quarterly.
- **щомісячний** monthly; *synonyms* (*adj*) menstrual, mensal, periodic, (*n*) magazine, periodical, journal, bulletin, paper, publication, review, weekly, quarterly.

- щонайменше least; synonyms (n) minimum, (adj) last, littlest, minimal, smallest, lowest, minutest, negligible, bottom, first, lest, vapid, atomic, feeblest, finical; antonyms (adv) most, (adj) maximum.
- **що-небудь 1**. anything; *synonyms* (*pron*) whatever, suchlike, (*n*) aught, thing, aucht, (*adv*) anywise, **2**. something; *synonyms* (*pron*) anything, (*n*) what, object, somewhat, article, entity, (*adv*) rather.
- **щорічний 1**. annual; *synonyms* (*adj*) yearly, annuary, (*n*) almanac, yearbook, ephemeris, magazine, **2**. anniversary; *synonyms* (*n*) birthday, celebration, festival, holiday, anniverse, milestone, ceremony, feast, festivity, recurrence, (*adj*) annual.
- **щорічник** annual; *synonyms* (*adj*) yearly, annuary, (*n*) almanac, yearbook, ephemeris, magazine.
- **щорічно** annually; *synonyms* (*adv*) yearly, anniversarily. **щось** 1. something; *synonyms* (*pron*) anything, (*n*) what, object, somewhat, thing, article, entity, (*adv*) rather, 2. anything; *synonyms* (*pron*) whatever, suchlike, (*n*) aught, aucht, (*adv*) anywise.
- **щотижневий** weekly; *synonyms* (*adv*) hebdomadally, (*n*) magazine, journal, newspaper, periodical, (*v*) quotidian, tertian.
- **щотижня** weekly; *synonyms* (*adv*) hebdomadally, (*n*) magazine, journal, newspaper, periodical, (*v*) quotidian, tertian.
- **щохвилини** momentarily; *synonyms* (*adv*) momently, fleetingly, awhile, provisionally, temporarily, now, quickly, briefly, cursorily, rapidly, transiently; *antonym* (*adv*) permanently.
- **шур** rat (пацюк); *synonyms* (n) grass, informer, apostate, betrayer, scab, renegade, (v) blackleg, denounce, betray, peach, sing, apostatize, squeal, defect, inform.

#### Ю

- **ювілей** anniversary; *synonyms* (*n*) birthday, celebration, festival, holiday, anniverse, milestone, ceremony, feast, festivity, recurrence, (*adj*) annual.
- **IOHAK 1.** Youth; *synonyms* (n) boy, juvenile, lad, young, youngster, adolescence, kid, juvenility, puberty, stripling, younker, child, puppy, infancy, (adj) adolescent; *antonyms* (n) adulthood, adult, ripeness, **2**. lad; *synonyms* (n) fellow, blighter, chap, cub, cuss, fella, laddie, schoolboy, companion, youth, gent, **3**. youngster; *synonyms* (n) urchin, toddler, baby, nipper, shaver, teen, teenager, girl, lass, minor.
- **IOHAILTBO** youth; *synonyms* (*n*) boy, juvenile, lad, young, youngster, adolescence, kid, juvenility, puberty, stripling, younker, child, puppy, infancy, (*adj*) adolescent; *antonyms* (*n*) adulthood, adult, ripeness.
- **юнацький** youthful; *synonyms* (*adj*) young, immature, fresh, green, juvenile, adolescent, vernal, childish, new, tender, beardless; *antonyms* (*adj*) old, adult.
- **юний 1.** youthful; *synonyms* (*adj*) young, immature, fresh, green, juvenile, adolescent, vernal, childish, new, tender, beardless; *antonyms* (*adj*) old, adult, **2.** young;

- **synonyms** (*adj*) raw, baby, boyish, callow, early, unripe, youthful, recent, childlike, inexperienced, infantile, (*n*) offspring, progeny, issue, child; **antonyms** (*adj*) mature, (*n*) aged.
- юність youth; *synonyms* (n) boy, juvenile, lad, young, youngster, adolescence, kid, juvenility, puberty, stripling, younker, child, puppy, infancy, (adj) adolescent; *antonyms* (n) adulthood, adult, ripeness.
- **10p6a** crowd; synonyms (n) huddle, swarm, collection, crew, press, circle, cluster, army, assembly, concourse, congregation, (v) bunch, flock, squeeze, compress; antonym (v) disperse.
- юрбитися crowd; synonyms (n) huddle, swarm, collection, crew, press, circle, cluster, army, assembly, concourse, congregation, (v) bunch, flock, squeeze, compress; antonym (v) disperse.
- **юридичний** legal; *synonyms* (*adj*) lawful, sound, valid, juridical, constitutional, judicial, permissible, rightful, true, correct, sanctioned, official, (*v*) allowable, legitimate, licit; *antonyms* (*adj*) illegal, unlawful, bogus.
- **юрисдикція** jurisdiction; *synonyms* (*n*) power, authority, dominion, district, judicature, influence, control, domain, government, domination, rule, sovereignty, sphere, credit, field.
- **юрисконсульт** solicitor; *synonyms* (*n*) lawyer, advocate, counsel, attorney, petitioner, counselor, factor, bailiff, clerk, secretary.
- **юриспруденція** law; *synonyms* (*n*) rule, canon, decree, act, edict, regulation, enactment, jurisprudence, justice, order, police, principle, ruling, axiom, directive.
- **IOPHCT 1.** attorney; *synonyms* (n) advocate, lawyer, agent, counsel, counselor, factor, solicitor, representative, auctioneer, underwriter, advisor, bailiff, clerk, gobetween, investigator, **2.** lawyer; *synonyms* (n) attorney, leguleian, beagle, brief, defender, fixer, mouthpiece, pettifogger, proctor, shyster.
- **юстиція** justice; *synonyms* (*n*) equity, fairness, impartiality, integrity, judge, right, judicature, jurist, justness, morality, correctness, court, (*adj*) honesty, just, principle; *antonyms* (*n*) injustice, unfairness.
- юшка soup (суп); *synonyms* (n) broth, predicament, amalgam, combination, compound, explosive, fog, fuel, haze, (v) pottage, potage, drink, liquor, beverage, (adj) emulsion

## Я

- **яблуко** apple; *synonyms* (n) city, world, (v) ball, (adj) green.
- **яблуня** apple; *synonyms* (n) city, world, (v) ball, (adj) green.
- явище 1. phenomenon; synonyms (n) event, appearance, marvel, miracle, incident, development, prodigy, wonder, occurrence, happening, apparition, fact, sight, manifestation, matter, 2. appearance; synonyms (n) air, face, look, semblance, shape, show, advent, form, image, impression, manner, surface, view, appear, arrival; antonyms (n) disappearance, departure, vanishing.

- явний 1. obvious; synonyms (adj) clear, visible, apparent, conspicuous, distinct, evident, flagrant, open, blatant, discernible, glaring, manifest, marked, noticeable, perceptible; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, obscure, hidden, imperceptible, unclear, undetectable, concealed, slight, subtle, 2. visible; synonyms (adj) obvious, observable, plain, appreciable, visual, transparent, palpable, overt, outward, patent, external, physical, seeable; *antonym* (adj) invisible, 3. apparent; synonyms (adj) definite, ostensible, specious, superficial, broad, surface, alleged, frank, perspicuous, presumable, presumptive, seeming, supposed, unequivocal, unmistakable; antonyms (adj) real, mysterious, 4. evident (очевидний); synonyms (adi) certain, bright, tangible, bold, demonstrable, notable, candid, prominent, pronounced, explicit, exposed, indisputable, indubitable, lucid, (adv) apparently; antonym (adj) unnoticed, 5. overt; synonyms (adj) barefaced, naked, public, unconcealed; antonyms (adj) camouflaged, covert, indirect, 6. patent (патент); synonyms (n) charter, (adj) unquestionable.
- **явно** apparently; *synonyms* (*adv*) seemingly, clearly, evidently, manifestly, obviously, ostensibly, patently, allegedly, noticeably, plain, plainly, presumably, probably, supposedly, visibly.
- ЯГДТАШ bag; *synonyms* (n) pocket, pouch, package, briefcase, purse, sack, case, container, knapsack, (v) bulge, capture, catch, filch, hook, net.
- **ягнитися** kid; *synonyms* (*n*) baby, child, youngster, infant, juvenile, toddler, tot, babe, (*v*) joke, jest, banter, chaff, mock, fool, jolly.
- ягня lamb; *synonyms* (*n*) dear, kid, beef, beloved, child, darling, dearest, flockling, honey, pork, twagger, ham, love, (*adj*) innocent, naive.
- **ядерний** nuclear; *synonyms* (*adj*) atomic, central, atomlike, inner, minute, nucleal, organic.
- AJPO 1. core; synonyms (n) bosom, center, essence, gist, heart, kernel, marrow, quintessence, stone, mind, base, burden, centre, crux, focus; antonym (adj) minor, 2. nucleus; synonyms (n) core, nub, root, basis, embryo, germ, bud, hub, meat, pivot, cream, egg, 3. bullet; synonyms (n) shot, round, missile, pellet, projectile, slug, carcass, grenade, ammunition, arrow, fastball, (adj) globule, spherule, bulb, drop.
- язик tongue; synonyms (n) language, dialect, idiom, lingua, speech, clapper, glossa, talk, knife, lingo, palate, (v) lick, (adj) flippancy, flowing, fluency.
- яйце egg; synonyms (n) ball, rudiment, eggs, nut, testicle, testis, ballock, bollock, stock, bud, embryo, nucleus, addict, baseball, beginning.
- nevertheless, nonetheless, notwithstanding, withal, yet,
   as; synonyms (conj) qua, because, since, considering, while, whilst, (prep) during, like, (adv) equally, from, (n) arsenic.
- якби if; synonyms (conf) provided, although, providing, whether, though, and, so, an, gin, (n) but, conditionally, condition, stipulation, proviso, (adv) peradventure.
- **який-небудь 1**. whatever; *synonyms* (*adj*) any, whatsoever, (*pron*) what, partly, somewhat, whatso,

- whosoever, (*adv*) anyway, regardless, **2**. any; *synonyms* (*adj*) all, either, whichever, every, several, some, alone, few, ony, quantitative, only, (*n*) aught, part, (*pron*) who.
- **ЯКИЙСЬ** Some; *synonyms* (*adv*) nearly, rather, somewhat, about, approximately, around, roughly, round, almost, near, (*adj*) few, certain, several, (*det*) any, (*n*) one.
- **RKICTL 1.** quality; *synonyms* (n) nature, character, characteristic, class, condition, feature, grade, distinction, faculty, description, mark, attribute, caliber, part, peculiarity; *antonym* (adj) shoddy, **2**. property; *synonyms* (n) capital, belongings, asset, estate, goods, place, wealth, substance, thing, assets, fortune, holding, means, (adj) quality, (v) possession, **3**. grade; *synonyms* (n) rank, degree, order, brand, category, gradient, score, form, group, slope, division, (v) level, classify, evaluate, range.
- **як-небудь** somehow; *synonyms* (*adv*) someway, someways.
- **SKOCL** Somehow; *synonyms* (*adv*) someway, someways. **SKPA3** exactly; *synonyms* (*adv*) precisely, correctly, right, truly, sharp, absolutely, just, accurately, certainly, closely, completely, directly, punctually, rightly, barely; *antonyms* (*adv*) approximately, inaccurately, (*prep*) about.
- **якщо** if; *synonyms* (*conj*) provided, although, providing, whether, though, and, so, an, gin, (*n*) but, conditionally, condition, stipulation, proviso, (*adv*) peradventure.
- **яловичина** beef; *synonyms* (*n*) gripe, grumble, moan, grouse, complaint, squawk, fuss, bitch, brawn, flesh, grievance, (*v*) complain, grouch, groan, bellyache.
- яма 1. hole; *synonyms* (*n*) cavity, aperture, crack, den, pocket, breach, break, burrow, cave, corner, depression, fix, hollow, lair, (*adj*) gap, 2. pit; *synonyms* (*n*) dent, hole, grave, colliery, excavation, mine, stone, dig, crater, fossa, indentation, kernel, (*v*) ditch, oppose, mark.
- ярд yard; *synonyms* (n) court, courtyard, garden, backyard, grounds, close, quadrangle, enclosure, beehive, bindery, chiliad, g, grand, m, nailery.
- ярлик 1. label; *synonyms* (n) name, brand, tag, title, designation, earmark, docket, group, (v) mark, call, classify, check, designate, distinguish, identify, 2. ticket; *synonyms* (n) pass, card, label, certificate, ballot, slate, warrant, slip, voucher, plank, platform, price, vote, (v) fine.
- SIPMAPOK fair; synonyms (adj) equitable, clear, beautiful, average, dispassionate, fine, impartial, reasonable, sweet, candid, (adv) clean, (n) bazaar, blonde, carnival, (v) bright; antonyms (adj) unfair, biased, dark, exceptional, unjust, partial, foul, imbalanced, mismatched, prejudiced, unwarranted.
- **πceH** ash; *synonyms* (n) jasmine, lilac, privet, spark, (ν) cinder, scoriae, soot, (adj) gray.
- яскравий 1. vivid; synonyms (adj) graphic, intense, brilliant, lifelike, rich, live, acute, animated, clear, colorful, glowing, strong, picturesque, expressive, (v) bright; antonym (adj) dull, 2. bright; synonyms (adj) alive, apt, intelligent, vivid, beaming, brainy, light, luminous, lustrous, shining, shiny, smart, sunny, gorgeous, nimble; antonyms (adj) cloudy, dark, dim, dreary, gloomy, stupid, unintelligent, overcast, shadowy, leaden, slow, thick, 3. picturesque; synonyms (adj) striking, idyllic, lovely, quaint, scenic, romantic, (v)

- pictorial, **4.** noisy; *synonyms* (*adj*) disorderly, boisterous, clamorous, loud, vociferous, blatant, rowdy, shrill, strident, tumultuous, turbulent, vocal, bustling, confused, harsh; *antonyms* (*adj*) quiet, peaceful, silent, calm, tranquil, **5.** powerful; *synonyms* (*adj*) cogent, able, brawny, forcible, hard, mighty, muscular, potent, effective, energetic, influential, lusty, vigorous, hardy, full; *antonyms* (*adj*) powerless, weak, mild.
- яскраво bright; synonyms (adj) clear, alive, apt, intelligent, vivid, beaming, brainy, brilliant, light, luminous, lustrous, shining, shiny, smart, sunny; antonyms (adj) dull, cloudy, dark, dim, dreary, gloomy, stupid, unintelligent, overcast, shadowy, leaden, slow, thick.
- **яскраво-червоний** scarlet; *synonyms* (*adj*) red, crimson, carmine, ruddy, ruby, (*n*) vermilion.
- ясний 1. clear; synonyms (adj) clean, certain, open, apparent, distinct, empty, (v) bright, acquit, absolute, free, net, absolve, clarify, definite, discharge; antonyms (adj) cloudy, opaque, unclear, dark, fuzzy, hazy, incomprehensible, obscure, uncertain, vague, ambiguous, blurry, confused, confusing, (v) convict, 2. distinct; synonyms (adj) clear, articulate, different, discrete, distinctive, palpable, decided, dissimilar, marked, plain, tangible, clear-cut, audible, (prep) separate, (adv) apart; antonyms (adj) indistinct, similar, inaudible, shapeless, 3. robust; synonyms (adj) healthy, firm, strong, athletic, brawny, muscular, powerful, vigorous, lusty, mighty, healthful, hearty, stout, (n) hardy, hard; antonyms (adj) weak, slight, fragile, frail, 4. plain; synonyms (adj) ordinary, comprehensible, intelligible, downright, easy, evident, homely, humble, level, manifest, obvious, simple, perspicuous, overt, (n) flat; antonyms (adj) elaborate, fancy, mottled, multicolored, ornate, attractive, concealed, fussy, twocolored, 5. fine; synonyms (adj) delicate, agreeable, dainty, brave, capital, elegant, excellent, nice, thin, delightful, acute, admirable, alright, (n) penalty, (v) punish; antonyms (adj) poor, thick, coarse, substantial, unsatisfactory, wide, 6. coherent; synonyms (adj) logical, rational, consistent, lucid, tenacious, orderly, connected, sound; antonyms (adj) incoherent, illogical, disjointed, rambling, 7. explicit; synonyms (adj) unmistakable, broad, direct, exact, sharp, emphatic, transparent, express, precise, specific, trenchant, detailed, positive, unambiguous, unequivocal; antonyms (adj) tacit, understood, unspoken, implicit, bland, 8. bright; synonyms (adj) alive, apt, intelligent, vivid, beaming, brainy, brilliant, light, luminous, lustrous, shining, shiny, smart, sunny, gorgeous; antonyms (adj) dull, dim, dreary, gloomy, stupid, unintelligent, overcast, shadowy, leaden, slow, 9. definite; synonyms (adj) accurate, categorical, conclusive, concrete, decisive, reliable, actual, assured, defined, explicit, particular, pronounced, sure, confident, (v) determinate; antonyms (adj) imprecise, doubtful, undefined, indeterminate, evasive, indefinite, indescribable, qualified, 10. neat; synonyms (adj) adroit, natty, tidy, graceful, clever, deft, dexterous, fresh, methodical, nifty, pretty, pure, straight, felicitous, (v) compact; antonyms (adj) untidy, messy, scruffy, unkempt, clumsy, disordered, 11. obvious;

synonyms (adj) visible, conspicuous, flagrant, blatant, discernible, glaring, noticeable, perceptible, undeniable, gross, indisputable, indubitable, prominent, salient, barefaced; antonyms (adj) inconspicuous, hidden, imperceptible, undetectable, subtle.

ясність 1. clarity; *synonyms* (n) clearness, limpidity, comprehensibility, precision, purity, coherence, lucidity, pellucidity, simplicity; *antonyms* (n) cloudiness, obscurity, vagueness, haziness, mistiness, opacity, uncertainty, unclearness, 2. definition; *synonyms* (n) description, account, explanation, interpretation, limitation, definiteness; *antonym* (n) bagginess.

specifically, particularly, clearly, purposely, 2. clear; synonyms (adi) clean, certain, open, apparent, distinct, empty, (v) bright, acquit, absolute, free, net, absolve, clarify, definite, discharge; antonyms (adj) cloudy, opaque, unclear, dark, fuzzy, hazy, incomprehensible, obscure, uncertain, vague, ambiguous, blurry, confused, confusing, (v) convict, 3. fair; synonyms (adj) equitable, clear, beautiful, average, dispassionate, fine, impartial, reasonable, sweet, candid, comely, considerable, (n) bazaar, blonde, carnival; antonyms (adj) unfair, biased, exceptional, unjust, partial, foul, imbalanced, mismatched, prejudiced, unwarranted, 4. clearly; synonyms (adv) apparently, decidedly, distinctly, evidently, explicitly, simply, understandably, intelligibly, surely, certainly, easily, absolutely, demonstrably, fair, indeed; antonyms (adv) indistinctly, vaguely, blurrily, imperceptibly, obscurely, unclearly, doubtfully, imperfectly, softly, 5. plain; synonyms (adj) ordinary, comprehensible, intelligible, downright, easy, evident, homely, humble, level, manifest, obvious, simple, perspicuous, overt, (n) flat; antonyms (adi) elaborate, fancy, mottled, multicolored, ornate, attractive, concealed, fussy, two-colored, 6, neatly: synonyms (adv) adroitly, cleanly, gracefully, dexterously, fitly, nattily, tastefully, aptly, elegantly, prettily, cleverly, closely, comptly, deftly, (adj) nimbly; antonyms (adv) messily, shabbily, untidily.

**AXTA** yacht; *synonyms* (*n*) boat, vessel, ship, craft, dinghy, clipper, ferry, liner, schooner.

**ЯЩИК** 1. box; synonyms (n) basket, cage, chest, package, booth, blow, carton, case, container, crate, envelope, (ν) cuff, buffet, beat, fight; antonym (ν) unbox, 2. case; synonyms (n) box, example, bin, cover, jacket, shell, affair, bag, briefcase, casing, eccentric, instance, suit, action, (adj) patient, 3. chest; synonyms (n) bosom, bust, bureau, casket, dresser, chamber, thorax, treasury, trunk, 4. cabinet; synonyms (n) closet, locker, press, cupboard, console, sideboard, board, council.

# Index of English Subjects to Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) Subjects

# Α

а see чудовий (wonderful). abandon see 1. залишати, 2. покидати, 3. відмовлятися, 4. ПОКИНУТИ.

**abandoned** *see* **1**. відмовляються, **2**. ЗАЛИШЕНИЙ, **3**. НЕСТРИМАНИЙ, **4**. ПОКИНУТИЙ.

abbey see 1. абатство, 2. монастир.

abdominal see черевний.

**ability** see **1**. ЗДІБНІСТЬ, **2**. ПЛАТОСПРОМОЖНІСТЬ, **3**. ПРАВОЗДАТНІСТЬ, **4**. спритність, **5**. спроможність, **6**. уміння, **7**. ЗДАТНІСТЬ.

**able** *see* 1. спроможний, **2**. здатний, **3**. умілий, **4**. ЗМОГТИ, **5**. вправний, **6**. ЗДІБНИЙ, **7**. МОГТИ.

**abnormal** *see* **1**. ненормальний, **2**. АНОРМАЛЬНИЙ.

aboard see 1. вздовж, 2. уздовж.

**abolition** see 1. скасування, 2. ліквідація, 3. ЗНИЩЕННЯ, 4. відміна, 5. АНУЛЮВАННЯ.

**abortion** *see* **1**. аборт, **2**. викидень, **3**. НЕДОНОСОК, **4**. НЕВДАЧА.

**about** see 1. про, 2. приблизно, 3. НЕДАЛЕКО, 4. щодо, 5. скрізь, 6. ПОБЛИЗУ, 7. ПО, 8. НАВКОЛО, 9. МАЙЖЕ, 10. КРУГОМ, 11. з, 12. НАВКРУГИ, 13. відносно, 14. ДОВКОЛА. **above** see 1. вище, 2. понад, 3. нагорі, 4. НАД, 5.

abroad see широко.

вгорі.

abruptly see 1. раптово, 2. КРУТО.

**absence** *see* **1**. відсутність, **2**. неуважність, **3**. відлучка, **4**. недостача (shortage).

absent see відсутній.

absolute see 1. абсолютний, 2. абсолют, 3. безсумнівний, 4. безумовний, 5. НЕОБМЕЖЕНИЙ, 6. чистий, 7. цілковитий, 8. повний, 9. САМОВЛАДНИЙ.

**absolutely** *see* **1**. абсолютно, **2**. НЕЗАЛЕЖНО, **3**. цілком, **4**. самостійно, **5**. безумовно, **6**. АЯКЖЕ, **7**. ЗВИЧАЙНО.

**absorb** *see* **1**. поглинати, **2**. вбирати, **3**. УСМОКТУВАТИ.

**absorption** see 1. ПОГЛИНЕННЯ, 2. усмоктування, 3. ЗАГЛИБЛЕНІСТЬ, 4. АБСОРБЦІЯ.

**abstract** *see* **1**. абстрактний, **2**. ВИПИСКА, **3**. ВИТЯГ, **4**. резюме, **5**. РЕФЕРАТ.

absurd see 1. безглуздий, 2. абсурдний.

**abundance** *see* **1**. достаток, **2**. багатство, **3**. безліч. **abundant** *see* **1**. рясний, **2**. багатий.

**abuse** *see* **1**. зловживання, **2**. зловживати, **3**. НАДУЖИВАТИ.

academic see АКАДЕМІЧНИЙ.

academy see академія.

acceleration see прискорення.

**accent** see 1. акцент, 2. наголос, 3. виділяти, 4. вимова.

ассерt see 1. приймати, 2. ПРИЙНЯТИ, 3. ДОПУСКАТИ (admit), 4. визнавати (recognize), 5. ПОГОДЖУВАТИСЯ.

**acceptable** *see* **1**. прийнятний, **2**. бажаний, **3**. ЖАДАНИЙ, **4**. ПРИЄМНИЙ.

**acceptance** *see* **1**. прийняття, **2**. ПРИЙОМ, **3**. ПРИЙМАННЯ, **4**. схвалення.

accepted see прийнятий.

ассеss see 1. доступ, 2. ПІДХІД, 3. ПРИСТУП, 4. ПРОХІД.

accessible see 1. доступний, 2. ПОДАТЛИВИЙ, 3. ДОСЯЖНИЙ.

accession see 1. приріст, 2. ЗБІЛЬШЕННЯ. accessories see 1. АКСЕСУАРИ, 2. ПРИЛАДДЯ.

accident see 1. випадок (occasion), 2. ABAPIЯ, 3. випадковість, 4. КАТАСТРОФА, 5. HEСПОДІВАНКА, consider also 6. нещасний випадок.

accidental see випадковий.

accidentally see випадково.

**accommodate** *see* **1**. пристосовувати, **2**. ПРИМИРЯТИ, **3**. улагоджувати, **4**. улаштовувати, **5**. ПОСТАЧАТИ.

**accommodation** *see* **1**. пристосування, **2**. ПОСЛУГА, **3**. ПРИТУЛОК (refuge), **4**. ПРИМІЩЕННЯ, **5**. ПОЗИКА, **6**. ПОГОДЖЕННЯ, **7**. ЖИТЛО, **8**. КОМПРОМІС, **9**. ПОМЕШКАННЯ.

**accompany** *see* **1**. супроводити, **2**. супроводжувати, **3**. проводити.

**accord** *see* **1**. згода, **2**. НАДАВАТИ, **3**. гармонія, **4**. єдність.

accordingly see відповідно.

account see 1. рахунок, 2. оцінка, 3. звіт, 4. відгук,
5. ДУМКА, 6. значення, 7. вигода, 8. вважати,
9. ПІДСТАВА, 10. важливість, 11. розрахунок,
12. визнавати (recognize).

accountability see відповідальність.

**accountable** *see* **1**. відповідальний, **2**. З'ЯСОВНИЙ, **3**. ПІДЗВІТНИЙ.

accountant see 1. бухгалтер, 2. рахівник.

**accounting** *see* **1**. облік, **2**. ЗВІТНІСТЬ, **3**. розрахунок.

**accumulation** *see* **1**. нагромадження, **2**. АКУМУЛЯЦІЯ, **3**. КУПА, **4**. НАКОПИЧЕННЯ, **5**. скупчення.

**accuracy** *see* **1**. правильність, **2**. точність, **3**. старанність.

**accurate** *see* **1**. правильний, **2**. точний (exact), **3**. ретельний.

accurately see точно.

**accused** *see* **1**. обвинувачуваний, **2**. підсудний. **ace** *see* **1**. Очко, **2**. туз.

асhieve  $see\ 1$ . досягати, **2**. ДОСЯГТИ, **3**. ДОБИВАТИСЯ.

**achievement** *see* **1**. виконання, **2**. досягнення, **3**. ЗДОБУТОК, **4**. ПОДВИГ, **5**. успіх.

acid see 1. кислота, 2. кислий (sour).

**acknowledge** *see* **1**. визнавати (recognize), **2**. ПІДТВЕРДЖУВАТИ, **3**. усвідомлювати, **4**. визнати

**acknowledgement** *see* **1**. вдячність, **2**. визнання, **3**. ПІДТВЕРДЖЕННЯ, **4**. ПОДЯКА.

acoustic see 1. звуковий, 2. акустичний.

acquaintance see 1. знайомство, 2. знайомий, 3. ЗНАЙОМА.

**acquire** *see* **1**. набувати, **2**. ДОСЯГАТИ, **3**. ЗДОБУВАТИ, **4**. НАБУТИ, **5**. ОВОЛОДІВАТИ.

acquisition see 1. надбання, 2. ПРИДБАННЯ. acre see акр.

across see 1. через, 2. крізь, 3. упоперек.

act see 1. акт, 2. діяти, 3. поводитися, 4. вчинок, 5. дія, 6. ЗАКОН, 7. чинити.

acting see 1. гра, 2. діючий, 3. ДІЙОВИЙ.

action see 1. дія, 2. вчинок, 3. ДІЯЛЬНІСТЬ, 4. учинок, 5. ПОЗОВ, 6. вплив, 7. бій, 8. АКЦІЯ, 9. ДІЯННЯ.

activation see активація.

active see 1. активний, 2. ЕНЕРГІЙНИЙ, 3. жвавий, 4. діяльний, 5. ДІЮЧИЙ.

actively see активно.

**activity** *see* **1**. АКТИВНІСТЬ, **2**. ДІЯЛЬНІСТЬ, **3**. ЕНЕРГІЯ, **4**. спритність.

actor see актор.

actress see актриса.

actual see 1. сучасний, 2. справжній, 3. ДІЙСНИЙ (valid), 4. актуальний, 5. ПОТОЧНИЙ, 6. фактичний.

actually see 1. дійсно, 2. насправді, 3. фактично. acute see 1. гострий, 2. ПРОНИКЛИВИЙ, 3. різкий, 4. ПРОНИЗЛИВИЙ, 5. КМІТЛИВИЙ, 6. сильний.

adapt see 1. приладжувати, 2. пристосовувати, 3. адаптувати, 4. пристосовуватися, 5. ПЕРЕРОБЛЯТИ, 6. ПРИГАНЯТИ, 7. ПРИСТОСУВАТИ.

adaptation see 1. АДАПТАЦІЯ, 2. ПРИСТОСУВАННЯ, 3. ПЕРЕРОБКА, 4. ЗАСТОСУВАННЯ.

**add** *see* **1**. додавати, **2**. ДОДАТИ, **3**. ПРИЄЛНУВАТИ.

addiction see схильність.

**addition** *see* **1**. доповнення, **2**. ДОДАВАННЯ, **3**. ДОДАТОК.

additional see додатковий.

additionally see додатково.

address see 1. адреса, 2. звертатися, 3. адресувати, 4. звернення, 5. ЗВЕРНУТИСЯ, 6. промова, 7. СПРЯМОВУВАТИ, 8. адрес.

**adequate** *see* **1**. відповідний (арргоргіаte), **2**. достатній, **3**. АДЕКВАТНИЙ, **4**. належний, **5**. КОМПЕТЕНТНИЙ.

adjacent see 1. сусідній, 2. ПРИЛЕГЛИЙ, 3. суміжний.

adjective see прикметник.

adjust see 1. пристосовувати, 2. КОРЕКТУВАТИ,
3. упорядковувати, 4. улагоджувати, 5. регулювати, 6. припасовувати, 7. ПРИГАНЯТИ, 8. ПОПРАВЛЯТИ, 9. лагодити,
10. ЗАЛАГОДЖУВАТИ, 11. ПОПРАВИТИ.

**adjustment** see 1. регулювання, 2. установка, 3. ПОГОДЖЕННЯ.

**administration** *see* **1**. управління, **2**. адміністрація, **3**. уряд, **4**. ЗАСТОСУВАННЯ, **5**. КЕРУВАННЯ, **6**. МІНІСТЕРСТВО.

administrative see 1. адміністративний, 2. АДМІНІСТРАТИВНО-ГОСПОДАРСЬКИЙ, 3. виконавчий, 4. управлінський.

**administrator** *see* **1**. управитель, **2**. адміністратор, **3**. керівник, **4**. ОПІКУН.

admiration see 1. захоплення, 2. ЗАХВАТ.

**admission** *see* **1**. вступ, **2**. доступ (access), **3**. вхід (entry), **4**. ДОПУЩЕННЯ, **5**. визнання, **6**. ПРИПУЩЕННЯ.

admit see 1. допускати, 2. допустити, 3. впускати,
4. вміщати, 5. визнавати (recognize), 6.
погоджуватися, 7. поступатися, 8. припускати,
9. припустити, 10. ДОЗВОЛЯТИ.

adopt see 1. приймати (ассерт), 2. усиновляти, 3. ПЕРЕЙМАТИ, 4. ЗАПОЗИЧУВАТИ, 5. вибирати, 6. усиновити, 7. ЗАСВОЮВАТИ.

adoption see 1. запозичення, 2. прийняття, 3. вибір, 4. ЗАСВОЄННЯ, 5. усиновлення.

adult see 1. дорослий, 2. повнолітній.

advance see 1. просуватися, 2. аванс, 3. АВАНСУВАТИ, 4. висувати, 5. ПІДВИЩЕННЯ, 6. прогрес.

advanced see ПЕРЕДОВИЙ.

**advancement** *see* **1**. ПРОГРЕС, **2**. ПРОСУВАННЯ, **3**. успіх.

**advantage** *see* **1**. перевага, **2**. вигода, **3**. КОРИСТЬ.

```
advent see 1. ПРИБУТТЯ (arrival), 2. ПРИХІД. adventure see 1. пригода, 2. авантюра, 3. випадок (occasion), 4. ризик.
```

adverse see 1. ворожий, 2. НЕСПРИЯТЛИВИЙ, 3. ПРОТИЛЕЖНИЙ, 4. шкідливий.

**advertisement** *see* **1**. реклама, **2**. АНОНС, **3**. ОГОЛОШЕННЯ, **4**. ОПОВІЩЕННЯ.

advertising see 1. реклама, 2. РЕКЛАМУВАННЯ.

**advice** *see* **1**. консультація, **2**. порада, **3**. повідомлення, **4**. ABI3O.

advisable see 1. доцільний, 2. розсудливий, 3. розумний (intelligent).

advise see 1. радити, 2. сповіщати, 3. ПОРАДИТИ, 4. ПОВІДОМЛЯТИ, 5. КОНСУЛЬТУВАТИ.

adviser see 1. радник, 2. КОНСУЛЬТАНТ.

advisory see 1. консультативний, 2. дорадчий.

aerial see 1. антена, 2. ПОВІТРЯНИЙ.

aeroplane see 1. аероплан, 2. літак.

aesthetic see естетичний.

**affair** *see* **1**. заняття, **2**. діло, **3**. справа, **4**. ПРИГОДА (adventure), **5**. справи, **6**. сутичка.

affect see 1. впливати, 2. ДІЯТИ, 3. хвилювати, 4. уражати, 5. удавати, 6. ЗВОРУШУВАТИ, 7. вадити, 8. ПРИКИДАТИСЯ.

**affected** *see* **1**. МАНІРНИЙ, **2**. ПОКАЗНИЙ, **3**. удаваний.

**affection** *see* **1**. любов (love), **2**. прихильність, **3**. ласка, **4**. КОХАННЯ (love), **5**. хвороба.

**affinity** *see* **1**. властивість, **2**. ПОТЯГ, **3**. ПРИВАБЛИВІСТЬ, **4**. спорідненість.

**afford** *see* **1**. ДАВАТИ, **2**. НАДАВАТИ.

afraid see зляканий.

**after** *see* **1**. після, **2**. пізніше, **3**. за, **4**. згодом, **5**. ПО, **6**. позаду, **7**. потім, **8**. згідно.

aftermath see наслідки.

afterwards see~1. згодом, 2. ПІЗНІШЕ, 3. ПОТІМ.

again see 1. знов, 2. знову, 3. часто.

age see 1. вік, 2. доба, 3. старіти.

**agency** *see* **1**. агентство, **2**. ЗАСІБ, **3**. фактор, **4**. сприяння, **5**. сила, **6**. ПРЕДСТАВНИЦТВО, **7**. ОРГАН, **8**. ПОСЕРЕДНИЦТВО.

agenda see регламент.

**agent** *see* **1**. агент, **2**. речовина, **3**. ПРЕДСТАВНИК, **4**. ПОСЕРЕДНИК, **5**. фактор.

**aggregate** *see* **1**. АГРЕГАТ, **2**. СУКУПНИЙ, **3**. СУКУПНІСТЬ.

**aggression** see **1**. агресія, **2**. АГРЕСИВНІСТЬ, **3**. НАПАД.

**aggressive** *see* **1**. агресивний, **2**. ЕНЕРГІЙНИЙ, **3**. НАПОЛЕГЛИВИЙ.

**ago** see тому.

agony see 1. агонія, 2. МУКА, 3. страждання.

agree see 1. домовлятися, 2. згоджуватися, 3. ПОГОДЖУВАТИСЯ, 4. ПОГОДИТИСЯ, 5. ЗГОДИТИСЯ, 6. ДОМОВИТИСЯ.

agreed see ПОГОДЖЕНИЙ.

**agreement** *see* **1**. договір, **2**. згода, **3**. угода, **4**. ДОМОВЛЕНІСТЬ.

agricultural see 1. ЗЕМЛЕРОБСЬКИЙ, 2. сільськогосподарський.

agriculture see землеробство.

ahead see 1. попереду, 2. вперед, 3. спереду.

**aid** *see* **1**. допомога (help), **2**. допомагати, **3**. помагати, **4**. поміч, **5**. помічник.

**aim** *see* **1**. мета, **2**. ціль, **3**. мішень, **4**. ПРИЦІЛЮВАТИСЯ, **5**. ПРАГНУТИ, **6**. НАМІР (intent, intention).

**air** *see* **1**. повітря, **2**. ПОВІТРЯНИЙ, **3**. ПРОВІТРЮВАТИ.

aircraft see 1. літак, 2. АВІАЦІЯ.

airline see 1. ABIAЛІНІЯ, 2. ABIAКОМПАНІЯ. airport see аеропорт.

alarm see тривога (anxiety).

album see альбом.

alcohol see 1. алкоголь, 2. спирт.

ale see 1. ель, 2. пиво (beer).

**alert** *see* **1**. насторожений, **2**. ПИЛЬНИЙ, **3**. тривога (anxiety).

algorithm see алгоритм.

alien see 1. чужий, 2. іноземець, 3. іноземний, 4. НЕВЛАСТИВИЙ, 5. чужинець, 6. чужоземець.

alike see схожий.

**alive** *see* **1**. живий, **2**. жвавий, **3**. бадьорий, **4**. чинний, **5**. чуйний, **6**. ДІЮЧИЙ.

all see 1. весь, 2. все, 3. всі, 4. вся, 5. цілий, 6. всякий, 7. ціле, 8. цілком, 9. НАЙБІЛЬШИЙ, 10. ПОВНІСТЮ, 11. усілякий.

alleged see мнимий.

allegedly see ніби.

**allegiance** *see* **1**. вірність, **2**. відданість, **3**. лояльність.

**alliance** *see* 1. альянс, 2. союз, 3. федерація, 4. ОБ'ЄДНАННЯ.

**allied** *see* **1**. союзний, **2**. союзницький, **3**. споріднений.

**allocation** *see* **1**. розподіл, **2**. АСИГНУВАННЯ, **3**. розміщення, **4**. ПРИЗНАЧЕННЯ, **5**. локалізація.

allow see 1. дозволяти, 2. НАДАВАТИ, 3. визнавати (recognize), 4. враховувати, 5. давати, 6. дозволити, 7. допускати (admit).

**allowance** *see* **1**. дозвіл, **2**. ЗНИЖКА, **3**. ПОСТАЧАННЯ, **4**. ДОПУЩЕННЯ.

**ally** *see* **1**. союзник, **2**. об'єднуватися, **3**. ПОМІЧНИК.

almost see майже.

```
alone see 1. один (one), 2. САМОТНІЙ, 3.
  ВИКЛЮЧНО, 4. самітний, 5. САМ.
along see 1. по, 2. вздовж, 3. уздовж.
alongside see 1. поряд, 2. поруч, 3. ПЛІЧ-О-ПЛІЧ.
aloud see 1. відчутно, 2. голосно, 3. уголос.
                                                     angel see ангел.
alpha see Альфа.
already see 1. вже, 2. уже.
also see 1. також, 2. теж.
altar see 1. вівтар, 2. олтар, 3. престол, 4.
  ЖЕРТОВНИК.
alter see 1. ПЕРЕРОБЛЯТИ, 2. видозмінювати, 3.
  ЗМІНЮВАТИ, 4. ЗМІНЮВАТИСЯ, 5.
  ЗМІНЯТИСЯ, 6. КАСТРУВАТИ, 7.
                                                        тваринний.
  МІНЯТИСЯ.
alteration see 1. переробка, 2. ПЕРЕБУДОВА, 3.
  ДЕФОРМАЦІЯ, 4. ЗМІНА.
alternative see 1. альтернатива, 2.
  альтернативний, 3. вибір, 4. ДУБЛЕТ.
alternatively see альтернативно.
although see 1. хоча, 2. хоч.
altogether see 1. загалом, 2. зовсім, 3. цілком, 4.
  ПОВНІСТЮ, 5. усього.
aluminium see 1. алюміній, 2. алюміній.
always see 1. завжди, 2. постійно.
amateur see 1. дилетант, 2. аматор, 3. любитель.
amazement see ЗДИВУВАННЯ.
ambassador see 1. посол. 2. вісник. 3.
  ПОСЛАНЕЦЬ, 4. ПРЕДСТАВНИК.
ambiguity see 1. ДВОЗНАЧНІСТЬ. 2.
  НЕЯСНІСТЬ, 3. НЕОДНОЗНАЧНІСТЬ.
ambiguous see 1. двозначний, 2. неясний, 3.
  НЕВИЗНАЧЕНИЙ, 4. НЕОДНОЗНАЧНИЙ.
ambition see 1. амбіція, 2. ПРАГНЕННЯ, 3.
  честолюбність, 4. МЕТА.
ambitious see 1. ПРЕТЕНЗІЙНИЙ, 2.
  честолюбний, 3. АМБІЦІЙНИЙ.
amendment see 1. виправлення, 2. поправка, 3.
  поліпшення.
ammunition see 1. патрони, 2. боєприпаси.
amnesty see амністія.
amount see 1. кількість, 2. ПІДСУМОК, 3.
  складати, 4. становити, 5. сума.
                                                        4. шось.
ample see 1. достатній, 2. ПРОСТОРИЙ
  (spacious), 3. рясний.
amusement see 1. забава, 2. розвага.
amusing see 1. смішний, 2. ЗАБАВНИЙ.
anal see анальний.
analogous see 1. подібний, 2. АНАЛОГІЧНИЙ.
analogy see аналогія.
                                                        (protection).
analyse see 1. аналізувати, 2. розбирати, 3.
  досліджувати.
analysis see аналіз.
analyst see 1. аналітик, 2. КОМЕНТАТОР.
                                                     apparent see 1. видимий, 2. очевидний (evident),
analytical see аналітичний.
```

```
ancient see 1. старий (old), 2. стародавній, 3.
  давній, 4. минулий, 5. колишній, 6. ДРЕВНІЙ,
   7. АНТИЧНИЙ, 8. ПРАПОРОНОСЕЦЬ.
and see 1. a, 2. та, 3. але, 4. i, 5. Й, 6. проте.
anger see 1. гнів, 2. гнівити, 3. сердити.
angle see 1. кут, 2. КОСИНЕЦЬ, 3. ситуація.
angrily see 1. гнівно, 2. сердито.
angry see 1. сердитий, 2. гнівний, 3.
  РОЗГНІВАНИЙ, 4. РОЗДРАТОВАНИЙ.
anguish see 1. біль (pain), 2. страждання.
animal see 1. тварина (beast), 2. звір, 3. тварини, 4.
ankle see кісточка.
anniversary see 1. роковини, 2. річниця, 3.
   щорічний, 4. ювілей.
announce see 1. оголошувати, 2. заявляти, 3.
  ПОВІДОМЛЯТИ, 4. ПРОГОЛОШУВАТИ, 5.
  ОГОЛОСИТИ, 6. ДОПОВІДАТИ, 7.
announcement see 1. оголошення, 2.
   ПОВІДОМЛЕННЯ, 3. сповіщення.
annual see 1. щорічний, 2. щорічник, 3. річний.
annually see щорічно.
anonymous see анонімний.
answer see 1. відповідь, 2. відповідати, 3.
   ЗАПЕРЕЧЕННЯ.
anthropology see антропологія.
antibody see антитіло.
anticipate see 1. передбачати, 2.
  ПРИСКОРЮВАТИ, 3. сподіватися, 4.
  ПЕРЕДЧУВАТИ, 5. ОЧІКУВАТИ, 6.
  НАБЛИЖАТИ.
anticipation see 1. сподівання (hope), 2.
  ПЕРЕДБАЧЕННЯ.
antique see 1. АНТИЧНИЙ, 2. ДРЕВНІЙ.
anxiety see 1. тривога, 2. турбота, 3. НЕСПОКІЙ.
anxious see 1. тривожний, 2. стурбований, 3.
  занепокоєний, 4. НЕСПОКІЙНИЙ, 5.
  стривожений.
any see 1. будь-який, 2. всякий, 3. який-небудь.
anything see 1. будь-що, 2. що-небудь, 3. НІЩО,
anywhere see 1. де-небудь, 2. скрізь, 3. куди-
  небудь, 4. НІКУДИ, 5. всюди.
apart see 1. окремо, 2. НАРІЗНО, 3. ОСТОРОНЬ.
apartment see 1. квартира, 2. КІМНАТА.
apology see 1. виправдання, 2.
  ПЕРЕПРОШЕННЯ, 3. вибачення, 4. ЗАХИСТ
appalling see ЖАХЛИВИЙ.
apparatus see 1. апарат, 2. прилад, 3.
   АПАРАТУРА, 4. інструмент, 5. МАШИНА.
```

безсумнівний, 4. явний, 5. ПОЗІРНИЙ.

```
apparently see 1. очевидно, 2. МАБУТЬ, 3. ПЕВНО, 4. явно.
```

арреаl see 1. заклик, 2. прохання, 3. звернення, 4. закликати, 5. апелювати, 6. благати, 7. ЗВЕРТАННЯ, 8. ЗВЕРТАТИСЯ, 9. ОСКАРЖУВАТИ, 10. ПРИВАБЛЮВАТИ, 11. ПРОСЬБА, 12. АПЕЛЯЦІЯ, 13. ПРОХАТИ, 14. відозва.

**appealing** *see* **1**. ЗВОРУШЛИВИЙ, **2**. ПРИВАБЛИВИЙ.

**appear** see 1. з'являтися, 2. показуватися, 3. здаватися, 4. З'ЯВИТИСЯ, 5. виступати, 6. видаватися, 7. ПОЯВЛЯТИСЯ, 8. ПРОЯВЛЯТИСЯ, 9. виходити.

арреаrance see 1. поява, 2. феномен, 3. З'ЯВЛЕННЯ, 4. виступ, 5. видимість, 6. явише

**appendix** *see* **1**. апендикс, **2**. додаток, **3**. придаток. **appetite** *see* **1**. апетит, **2**. ОХОТА, **3**. СХИЛЬНІСТЬ.

apple see 1. яблуко, 2. яблуня.

**applicable** *see* **1**. придатний, **2**. відповідний (appropriate), **3**. ЗАСТОСОВНИЙ.

**applicant** *see* **1**. претендент, **2**. прохач, **3**. КАНДИДАТ.

аpplication see 1. застосування, 2. старанність, 3. прохання, 4. заява, 5. вживання, 6. аплікація, 7. звернення, 8. ПРИКЛАДАННЯ, 9. використання, 10. ретельність, 11. уважність, 12. ЗАЯВКА.

**apply** *see* **1**. застосовувати, **2**. накладати, **3**. відноситися, **4**. вживати, **5**. ПРИКЛАДАТИ.

**арроіnt** *see* **1**. призначати, **2**. ДОМОВЛЯТИСЯ, **3**. ЗАТВЕРДЖУВАТИ, **4**. НАКАЗУВАТИ, **5**. ПРИЗНАЧИТИ.

**appointment** *see* **1**. побачення, **2**. призначення, **3**. МІСЦЕ, **4**. ЗУСТРІЧ, **5**. ПОСАДА.

appraisal see оцінка.

арргесіаte see 1. розуміти, 2. ЦІНУВАТИ, 3. ВІДЧУВАТИ, 4. РОЗРІЗНЯТИ, 5. усвідомлювати, 6. ЦІНИТИ.

**appreciation** *see* 1. розрізнення, **2**. ПОДОРОЖЧАННЯ, **3**. визначення, **4**. ОЦІНКА.

арргеhension see 1. розуміння, 2. УЯВЛЕННЯ, 3. арешт, 4. затримання, 5. КМІТЛИВІСТЬ, 6. побоювання, 7. СПРИЙНЯТЛИВІСТЬ, 8. СТРАХ (fear).

арргоасh see 1. підходити, 2. наближення, 3. наближатися, 4. НАСТАННЯ, 5. ПІДЇЗД, 6. ПІДХІД, 7. ЗВЕРТАТИСЯ.

**appropriate** *see* **1**. відповідний, **2**. властивий, **3**. придатний, **4**. ПРИВЛАСНЮВАТИ, **5**. ПРИВЛАСНИТИ, **6**. належний.

**арргоval** *see* **1**. схвалення, **2**. ЗАТВЕРДЖЕННЯ, **3**. санкція.

арргоve see 1. схвалювати, 2. санкціонувати, 3. ЗАТВЕРДЖУВАТИ, 4. випробовувати, 5. схвалити

**approved** *see* **1**. випробуваний, **2**. ПЕРЕВІРЕНИЙ, **3**. схвалений.

approximately see приблизно.

арt see 1. схильний, 2. МОЖЛИВИЙ, 3. підхожий, 4. ДОРЕЧНИЙ, 5. відповідний (арргоргіаtе), 6. ПРИДАТНИЙ, 7. ЗДІБНИЙ.

aquarium see акваріум.

**arbitrary** *see* **1**. довільний, **2**. свавільний, **3**. ДЕСПОТИЧНИЙ, **4**. ПРИМХЛИВИЙ.

arbitration see арбітраж.

arc see 1. дуга, 2. іскра, 3. АРКА.

**arch** *see* **1**. арка, **2**. дуга, **3**. хитрий, **4**. лукавий, **5**. райдуга, **6**. склепіння.

archaeological see археологічний.

archaeology see археологія.

**archbishop** *see* **1**. APXIЄПИСКОП, **2**. APXIЄПІСКОП.

**architect** *see* **1**. архітектор, **2**. ЗОДЧИЙ, **3**. творець.

architectural see apхітектурний.

**architecture** *see* **1**. архітектура, **2**. ЗОДЧЕСТВО, **3**. структура.

arctic see 1. арктичний, 2. ПОЛЯРНИЙ, 3. АРКТИКА.

are see ap.

аrea see 1. площа, 2. простір, 3. край, 4. сфера, 5. район, 6. ділянка, 7. галузь, 8. область, 9. майдан, 10. зона, 11. РОЗМАХ.

arena see арена.

**argue** *see* **1**. сперечатися, **2**. переконувати, **3**. аргументувати, **4**. ДОВОДИТИ.

**argument** see **1**. аргумент, **2**. довід, **3**. АРГУМЕНТАЦІЯ, **4**. ДИСКУСІЯ, **5**. ДОКАЗ.

**arise** *see* **1**. з'являтися, **2**. виникати, **3**. вставати, **4**. ПОСТАВАТИ, **5**. воскресати.

aristocracy see apистократія.

aristocratic see аристократичний.

**arm** *see* **1**. рука (hand), **2**. зброя (weapon), **3**. озброювати, **4**. спиця, **5**. ручка, **6**. ПІДЛОКІТНИК, **7**. ЗАРЯДЖАТИ, **8**. влада (authority), **9**. рукав.

armchair see крісло.

armed see збройний.

**armour** *see* **1**. скафандр, **2**. броня, **3**. ОЗБРО€ННЯ, **4**. ПАНЦИР.

arms see ЗБРОЯ (weapon).

**army** see 1. армія, 2. безліч, 3. військо, 4. MACA (mass).

around see 1. навкруги, 2. біля, 3. НАВКОЛО. arrange see 1. розташовувати, 2. влаштовувати, 3. домовлятися, 4. ПІДГОТОВЛЯТИ, 5. ПРИСТОСОВУВАТИ, 6. систематизувати, 7. улагоджувати.

**arrangement** *see* **1**. розташування, **2**. ПРИСТРІЙ, **3**. МЕХАНІЗМ, **4**. ДОМОВЛЕНІСТЬ, **5**. ПРИСТОСУВАННЯ, **6**. угода.

arrest see 1. арешт, 2. заарештувати, 3. АРЕШТУВАТИ, 4. ЗААРЕШТОВУВАТИ, 5. затримка, 6. ЗАТРИМУВАТИ.

arrival see 1. прибуття, 2. приїзд, 3. ПРИЙНЯТТЯ, 4. ДОСЯГНЕННЯ, 5. ПРИБУВАННЯ.

arrive see 1. прибувати, 2. НАСТАВАТИ, 3. ПРИБУТИ, 4. ПРИЇХАТИ, 5. ПРИХОДИТИ (come)

arrogant see 1. самовпевнений, 2. ЗАРОЗУМІЛИЙ, 3. гордовитий, 4. ПИХАТИЙ.

arrow see 1. стріла, 2. стрілка.

arse see ЗАД.

arsenal see 1. Арсенал, 2. Зброя (weapon).

art see 1. мистецтво, 2. майстерність, 3. уміння. article see 1. стаття, 2. товар, 3. ПУНКТ, 4.

ПРЕДМЕТ, **5**. ПАРАГРАФ, **6**. артикль, **7**. ОБВИНУВАЧУВАТИ.

artificial see штучний.

artillerv see артилерія.

artist see 1. художник, 2. митець, 3. артист.

**artistic** *see* **1**. артистичний, **2**. МИСТЕЦЬКИЙ, **3**. художній.

as see 1. як (how), 2. оскільки, 3. КОЛИ.

ascent see 1. ПІДІЙМАННЯ, 2. узвіз, 3. ПІДЙОМ, 4. сходження.

ash see 1. попіл, 2. ясен, 3. ЗОЛА.

aside see yõik.

ask see 1. питати, 2. просити, 3. попросити, 4. спитати, 5. ЗАПИТУВАТИ, 6. ДОВІДУВАТИСЯ, 7. вимагати, 8. ЗАПРОШУВАТИ.

**asleep** *see* **1**. сплячий, **2**. МЛЯВИЙ, **3**. тупий. **aspect** *see* **1**. вигляд, **2**. аспект, **3**. сторона, **4**. бік, **5**. вил.

**assault** *see* **1**. атака, **2**. штурм, **3**. напад, **4**. АТАКУВАТИ, **5**. НАПАДАТИ.

**assembly** *see* **1**. ЗІБРАННЯ, **2**. АГРЕГАТ, **3**. ЗОСЕРЕДЖЕННЯ, **4**. ЗБІР, **5**. АСАМБЛЕЯ, **6**. ЗБОРИ (meeting).

**assert** see 1. заявляти, 2. твердити, 3. відстоювати, 4. ЗАХИЩАТИ.

**assertion** *see* **1**. твердження, **2**. ОБСТОЮВАННЯ. **assess** *see* **1**. ОЦІНЮВАТИ, **2**. штрафувати, **3**. ОПОДАТКОВУВАТИ.

asset see 1. МАЙНО, 2. ПЕРЕВАГА.

assets see АКТИВ.

assignment see 1. призначення, 2. ПЕРЕДАЧА, 3. розподіл, 4. відрядження, 5. АСИГНУВАННЯ, 6. ЗАВДАННЯ.

**assist** *see* 1. допомагати, 2. сприяти. **assistance** *see* 1. допомога (help), 2. сприяння.

**assistant** see 1. помічник, 2. асистент. **associated** see 1. АСОЦІЙОВАНИЙ, 2. ОБ'ЄДНАНИЙ.

**association** *see* **1**. товариство, **2**. асоціація, **3**. дружба (friendship), **4**. ЗВ'ЯЗОК, **5**. З'ЄДНАННЯ, **6**. ОБ'ЄДНАННЯ, **7**. спілка.

**assume** *see* **1**. НАБИРАТИ, **2**. ПРИЙМАТИ (accept), **3**. вважати, **4**. удавати.

**assumed** *see* **1**. ПЕРЕДБАЧУВАНИЙ, **2**. ПРИСВОЄНИЙ, **3**. удаваний.

**assumption** *see* **1**. припущення, **2**. ДОПУЩЕННЯ, **3**. ПРИВЛАСНЕННЯ, **4**. удавання.

**assurance** *see* **1**. гарантія, **2**. ЗАПЕВНЕННЯ, **3**. упевненість, **4**. НАХАБСТВО, **5**. страхування (insurance).

**assure** *see* **1**. запевняти, **2**. гарантувати, **3**. ЗАБЕЗПЕЧУВАТИ, **4**. ЗАПЕВНИТИ, **5**. ПЕРЕКОНУВАТИ, **6**. страхувати.

**assured** *see* **1**. самовпевнений, **2**. упевнений, **3**. ЗАСТРАХОВАНИЙ, **4**. ВПЕВНЕНИЙ.

asthma see астма.

astonishing see ДИВНИЙ.

astonishment  $see\ 1$ . здивування,  ${f 2}$ . ПОДИВ. asylum  $see\ 1$ . притулок (refuge),  ${f 2}$ . ЗАХИСТОК.

at see 1. в, 2. у (in), 3. на, 4. за, 5. ПРИ, 6. біля, 7. ДО.

**atmosphere** *see* **1**. атмосфера, **2**. ОБСТАНОВКА, **3**. ПОВІТРЯ.

atmospheric see атмосферний.

atom see атом.

atomic see атомний.

attached see 1. ДОДАНИЙ, 2. ПРИВ'ЯЗАНИЙ, 3. ПРИКОМАНДИРОВАНИЙ, 4. ПРИКРІПЛЕНИЙ, 5. відданий.

**attachment** *see* **1**. відданість, **2**. ПРИКРІПЛЕННЯ, **3**. ПРИХИЛЬНІСТЬ.

attack see 1. напад, 2. нападати, 3. наступ, 4. уражати, 5. руйнувати, 6. ПРИСТУП, 7. напасти, 8. АТАКУВАТИ, 9. КРИТИКУВАТИ.

**attainment** see 1. досягнення, 2. НАДБАННЯ. **attempt** see 1. спроба, 2. намагатися.

attend see 1. ДБАТИ, 2. ДОГЛЯДАТИ, 3. ПІКЛУВАТИСЯ, 4. ПРИСЛУГОВУВАТИ, 5. стежити, 6. супроводжувати.

attendance see 1. догляд, 2. ПРИСУТНІСТЬ, 3. ОБСЛУЖУВАННЯ, 4. відвідуваність, 5. АУДИТОРІЯ, 6. ОБСЛУГОВУВАННЯ.

attention see 1. увага, 2. ДБАННЯ, 3. ДОГЛЯД, 4. ПІКЛУВАННЯ, 5. уважність.

attic see 1. мансарда, 2. горище.

**attitude** *see* **1**. поза, **2**. ставлення, **3**. відношення, **4**. ПОЗИЦІЯ, **5**. ПОСТАВА.

**attorney** *see* **1**. адвокат, **2**. прокурор, **3**. юрист, **4**. ПРАВНИК, **5**. ПОВІРЕНИЙ.

**attract** *see* **1**. притягувати, **2**. приваблювати, **3**. ПРИТЯГАТИ.

attraction see 1. привабливість, 2. АТРАКЦІОН, 3. ПРИМАНКА, 4. ПРИТЯГАННЯ, 5. тяжіння

attractive see 1. привабливий, 2. ПРИТЯГАЛЬНИЙ.

auction see аукціон.

audience see 1. публіка, 2. АУДИТОРІЯ, 3. АУДІЄНЦІЯ, 4. радіослухачі, 5. телеглядачі. audio see звуковий.

**audit** see 1. перевірка, 2. ПЕРЕВІРЯТИ, 3. ревізія, 4. ревізувати.

aunt see 1. тітка, 2. тьотя.

**authentic** see **1**. справжній, **2**. АВТЕНТИЧНИЙ, **3**. АУТЕНТИЧНИЙ, **4**. вірогідний, **5**. дійсний (valid), **6**. ДОСТОВІРНИЙ.

**author** *see* **1**. автор, **2**. письменник, **3**. винуватець, **4**. ініціатор, **5**. творець.

**authoritative** *see* **1**. авторитетний, **2**. владний, **3**. впливовий.

**authority** *see* 1. влада, **2**. авторитет, **3**. повноваження, **4**. вплив, **5**. вага, **6**. влади.

automatic see автоматичний.

automatically see автоматично.

**autonomous** see **1**. автономний, **2**. самоврядний. **autonomy** see **1**. автономія, **2**. самоврядування. **autumn** see **1**. осінь, **2**. ОСІННІЙ.

availability see 1. придатність, 2. КОРИСНІСТЬ, 3. НАЯВНІСТЬ, 4. ПОПУЛЯРНІСТЬ.

available see 1. доступний, 2. КОРИСНИЙ, 3. НАЯВНИЙ, 4. ДОСЯЖНИЙ, 5. ДІЙСНИЙ (valid), 6. ПРИДАТНИЙ.

avenue see 1. Проспект, 2. Авеню, 3. Алея, 4. ДОРОГА (way), 5. ЗАСІБ, 6. Шлях (way). average see 1. пересічний, 2. середній, 3.

ЗВИЧАЙНИЙ. aviation see авіація.

**avoid** *see* **1**. ухилятися, **2**. АНУЛЮВАТИ, **3**. уникати.

**awake** *see* **1**. будити, **2**. ПРОБУДЖУВАТИ, **3**. прокидатися.

award see 1. НАГОРОДЖУВАТИ, 2. ухвала, 3. ПРИСУДЖЕННЯ, 4. НАГОРОДА, 5. ПРИСУДЖУВАТИ.

aware see 1. обізнаний, 2. поінформований. awareness see ПРАВОСВІДОМІСТЬ.

away see 1. геть, 2. ДАЛЕКО.

awful see 1. жахливий, 2. величний.

**awkward** *see* **1**. незграбний, **2**. незручний, **3**. СКРУТНИЙ.

axe see сокира.

axis see Bicb.

# B

baby see 1. немовля, 2. дитинча, 3. маля, 4. малюк, 5. малечий, 6. дитячий, 7. ДИТИНА (child).

back see 1. спина, 2. назад, 3. ПОЗАДУ, 4. спинка,
5. ПРОСТРОЧЕНИЙ, 6. ПІДТРИМУВАТИ, 7. ПІДКЛАДКА, 8. ОСАДЖУВАТИ, 9. ОБУХ,
10. старий (old), 11. виворіт, 12.
ЗАКРІПЛЯТИ, 13. ЗАДНІЙ, 14. гребінь, 15. відступати, 16. відсталий, 17. віддалений, 18.
ЗАПІЗНІЛИЙ, 19. КОРІНЕЦЬ.

**background** *see* **1**. фон, **2**. тло, **3**. ПІДГОТОВКА, **4**. КВАЛІФІКАЦІЯ, **5**. ПЕРЕДУМОВА.

backing see 1. підтримка, 2. ПІДКЛАДКА, 3. субсидування.

backwards see 1. ЗВОРОТНИЙ, 2. НАЗАД. bacon see бекон.

bad see 1. поганий, 2. злий, 3. КЕПСЬКИЙ, 4. НЕГАРНИЙ.

badly see погано.

bag see 1. торба, 2. сумка, 3. ЗАХОПЛЮВАТИ, 4. чемодан, 5. торбина, 6. портфель, 7. МІШОК, 8. лантух, 9. ЗБИРАТИ, 10. ЯГДТАШ, 11. ВИМ'Я, 12. БЕЗЛІЧ, 13. ЗДОБИЧ.

bail see 1. порука, 2. ЗАСТАВА, 3. ПОРУЧИТЕЛЬ.

baker see ΠΕΚΑΡ.

balance see 1. баланс, 2. рівновага, 3. терези, 4. ОБДУМУВАТИ, 5. МАЯТНИК, 6. ваги, 7. балансувати.

balanced see 1. ЗРІВНОВАЖЕНИЙ, 2. ПРОПОРЦІЙНИЙ, 3. урівноважений, 4. ЗБАЛАНСОВАНИЙ.

balcony see балкон.

bald see 1. лисий, 2. ПЛІШИВИЙ, 3. убогий, 4. ПРЯМИЙ, 5. ПРОСТИЙ, 6. НЕПРИКРИТИЙ, 7. НЕПРИКРАШЕНИЙ, 8. ОГОЛЕНИЙ, 9. безбарвний, 10. голомозий.

ball see 1. м'яч, 2. ПЛУТАТИ, 3. КУЛЯ, 4. бейсбол, 5. бал.

ballet see балет.

**balloon** *see* **1**. балон, **2**. АЕРОСТАТ, **3**. овал, **4**. роздуватися.

ballot see 1. балотування, 2. голосування, 3. голосувати, 4. балотувати, 5. ЖЕРЕБКУВАННЯ.

ban see 1. заборона, 2. ПРОКЛЯТТЯ.

band see 1. зв'язувати, 2. банда, 3. загін, 4. ПОЯСОК, 5. ПОВ'ЯЗУВАТИ, 6. ОРКЕСТР, 7. ОБРУЧ, 8. ЗБИРАТИСЯ, 9. стрічка, 10. група (group), 11. бинт, 12. ОБІД.

**bang** *see* **1**. стукнути, **2**. ударити, **3**. удар, **4**. прямо, **5**. гашиш, **6**. РАПТОМ.

bank see 1. банк, 2. берег, 3. банківський, 4. банку, 5. вал, 6. лава, 7. НАВАЛЮВАТИ, 8. НАСИП.

banker see банкір.

banking see НАСИП.

**bankruptcy** *see* **1**. банкрутство, **2**. НЕСПРОМОЖНІСТЬ.

banner see 1. стяг, 2. прапор (flag).

bar see 1. бар, 2. брикет, 3. засув, 4. перешкода, 5. перешкоджати, 6. брусок, 7. бар'єр, 8. такт, 9. перегороджувати, 10. шматок, 11. ПЛИТКА, 12. стійка, 13. ПЕРЕПОНА, 14. ПРИЛАВОК, 15. ЗАКУСОЧНА, 16. закривати, 17. ЗАБОРОНЯТИ, 18. гальмувати, 19. виключати, 20. болванка.

bare see 1. голий, 2. НЕЗНАЧНИЙ, 3. оголений, 4. НАЙМЕНШИЙ.

barely see 1. лише, 2. ПРОСТО, 3. тільки, 4. ледве.

bargain see 1. торгуватися, 2. домовленість.

barn see 1. сарай, 2. амбар, 3. комора, 4. гараж (garage), 5. хлів, 6. стодола, 7. стайня, 8. клуня, 9. депо, 10. КОРІВНИК.

baroque see 1. бароко, 2. химерний.

barrel see 1. барель, 2. бочка.

barrier see 1. бар'єр, 2. ПЕРЕШКОДА.

base see 1. основа, 2. базувати, 3. ПІДСТАВА, 4. ПІДЛИЙ, 5. ЗАСНОВУВАТИ, 6. ПІДВАЛИНА, 7. цоколь, 8. фундамент, 9. НЕБЛАГОРОДНИЙ, 10. базовий, 11. базис, 12. база, 13. НИЗЬКИЙ (low), 14. НИЗЬКОПРОБНИЙ.

**basement** see 1. підвал, 2. ПІДВАЛИНА, 3. фундамент.

**basic** *see* **1**. основний, **2**. головний, **3**. базовий. **basil** *see* **1**. грань, **2**. ПЕРГАМЕНТ.

basin see 1. чаша, 2. резервуар, 3. таз, 4. водойма, 5. басейн, 6. МИСКА.

**basis** *see* **1**. основа, **2**. база, **3**. базис, **4**. ПІДСТАВА.

basket see кошик.

bass see 1. бас, 2. басовий, 3. НИЗЬКИЙ (low).

bastard see 1. позашлюбний, 2. шельма.

bat see 1. кажан, 2. темп.

**batch** *see* **1**. група (group), **2**. ПАКЕТ, **3**. ПАЧКА. **bath** *see* ванна.

bathroom see ванна.

**battery** *see* **1**. батарея, **2**. ДИВІЗІОН, **3**. АКУМУЛЯТОР.

battle see 1. битва. 2. бій.

bay see 1. бухта, 2. гавкати, 3. затока, 4. ПЕРЕСЛІДУВАТИ, 5. стійло, 6. НІША, 7. НАБЕРЕЖНА, 8. лавр. be see 1. бути, 2. існувати, 3. бувати, 4. відбуватися, 5. КОШТУВАТИ, 6. ПЕРЕБУВАТИ, 7. траплятися.

beach see пляж.

**beam** *see* 1. промінь, 2. балка, 3. перекладка, 4. брус.

bear see 1. ведмідь, 2. носити, 3. народжувати, 4. ТРИМАТИСЯ, 5. підтримувати, 6. переносити, 7. нести, 8. мати, 9. ВИТРИМУВАТИ, 10. ВИНОСИТИ, 11. перевозити.

beard see борода.

bearing see 1. поведінка, 2. НОСІННЯ, 3. терпіння, 4. НЕСУЧИЙ, 5. ЗНАЧЕННЯ, 6. відношення, 7. ПЛОДОНОШЕННЯ.

**beast** *see* **1**. тварина (animal), **2**. звір, **3**. худоба (cattle).

beat see 1. бити, 2. ударяти, 3. биття, 4. перемагати, 5. тіпати, 6. стукати, 7. ритм (rhythm), 8. пульсувати, 9. переважати, 10. обшукувати, 11. кувати, 12. удар, 13. відбивати, 14. битися, 15. пульсація.

beaten see 1. ПЕРЕМОЖЕНИЙ, 2. ПОБИТИЙ, 3. стомлений.

beating see 1. биття, 2. ПОРАЗКА, 3. ПОРОТТЯ. beautiful see 1. красивий, 2. гарний, 3. прекрасний, 4. вродливий, 5. чудовий (wonderful).

**beauty** *see* **1**. краса, **2**. врода, **3**. КРАСУНЯ. **become** *see* **1**. стати, **2**. ставати, **3**. годитися, **4**. робитися.

becoming see становлення.

bed see 1. ліжко, 2. ПОСТІЛЬ.

bedroom see спальня.

bee see бджола.

beef see 1. яловичина, 2. віл.

beer see пиво.

before see 1. перед, 2. раніше, 3. ДО.

**beforehand** *see* **1**. заздалегідь, **2**. ЗАВЧАСНО, **3**. НАПЕРЕД.

beg see 1. благати, 2. просити, 3. жебрачити. begin see починати.

**beginning** *see* **1**. початок, **2**. джерело (origin, source), **3**. походження.

behave see 1. поводитися, 2. чинити.

**behaviour** *see* **1**. поведінка, **2**. МАНЕРИ, **3**. ПОВОДЖЕННЯ.

behind see 1. позаду, 2. за, 3. зад, 4. ззаду, 5. після.

being see 1. існування, 2. істота.

**belief** *see* **1**. віра (faith), **2**. вірування, **3**. ДОВІРА, **4**. ПЕРЕКОНАННЯ.

**believe** *see* **1**. вірити, **2**. довіряти, **3**. вважати, **4**. гадати, **5**. вірувати, **6**. думати.

bell see 1. дзвін, 2. бубонець, 3. ДЗВОНИК.

**belly** *see* **1**. живіт, **2**. шлунок.

belong see належати.

beloved see 1. коханий, 2. любий, 3. улюблений.

below see 1. нижче, 2. внизу, 3. під, 4. униз.

belt see 1. пояс, 2. ремінь, 3. ПАСОК.

bench see 1. лава, 2. верстак, 3. лавка, 4. стелаж.

bend see 1. гнути. 2. ЗГИНАТИ.

beneath see НИЖЧЕ.

beneficial see 1. вигідний, 2. КОРИСНИЙ, 3. цілющий.

benefit see 1. користь, 2. вигода.

bent see 1. схильність, 2. НАТЯГ, 3. ПОХИЛЕНИЙ.

besides see 1. KPIM, 2. також.

best see НАЙКРАЩИЙ.

bet see 1. парі, 2. заклад, 3. ставка.

better see 1. кращий, 2. більше, 3. краще, 4. поліпшувати, 5. виправляти (correct), 6. піпший

between see між.

beyond see 1. поза, 2. понад, 3. вище, 4. за.

bias see 1. ухил, 2. ЗМІЩЕННЯ, 3. похилість, 4. пристрасть, 5. прихильність, 6. схиляти.

bible see біблія.

biblical see біблійний.

bicycle see велосипед.

big see 1. великий, 2. високий (high), 3.
КРУПНИЙ, 4. широкий, 5. ДОРОСЛИЙ, 6.
гучний, 7. важливий.

bilateral see двосторонній.

bile see 1. жовч, 2. ЖОВЧНІСТЬ.

bill see 1. рахунок, 2. білль, 3. вексель, 4. законопроект, 5. сікач, 6. список, 7. ПРОГРАМА, 8. банкнота.

bin see бункер.

binding see 1. ЗВ'ЯЗУВАННЯ, 2. ОБКЛАДИНКА.

binoculars see 1. біноклі, 2. бінокль.

biography see біографія.

biological see біологічний.

biology see біологія.

**bird** *see* **1**. птах, **2**. ПТАШКА, **3**. волан, **4**. птаха. **birth** *see* **1**. народження, **2**. ПОХОДЖЕННЯ, **3**.

biscuit see бісквіт.

bishop see 1. єпископ, 2. єпіскоп.

**bit** see 1. шматочок, **2**. ЗУБИЛО, **3**. біт, **4**. бур, **5**. ЗАГНУЗДУВАТИ.

bitch see сука.

bite see 1. кусати, 2. укус.

bitter see 1. гіркий, 2. болісний.

bitterly see гірко.

bitterness see гіркота.

bizarre see 1. химерний, 2. ЕКСЦЕНТРИЧНИЙ.

black see чорний.

bladder see пузир.

**blade** see 1. лезо. 2. КЛИНОК.

**blame** *see* **1**. ганити, **2**. ЗВИНУВАЧУВАТИ, **3**. відповідальність, **4**. догана, **5**. гудити.

blank see 1. бланк, 2. чистий, 3.

НЕЗАПОВНЕНИЙ, 4. ПОРОЖНІЙ (empty), 5. ПРОГАЛИНА, 6. ПУСТИЙ.

blanket see 1. ковдра, 2. ПОПОНА.

**blast** *see* **1**. вибух, **2**. підривати, **3**. знищувати, **4**. шкодити.

blaze see 1. полум'я, 2. сяяти, 3. блиск, 4. спалах.

bleak see 1. відкритий (open), 2. ПОХМУРИЙ, 3. холодний.

**blessing** *see* **1**. благословення, **2**. МОЛИТВА (prayer).

blind see 1. сліпий, 2. штора, 3. тупик, 4. сліпе, 5. НЕЯСНИЙ, 6. НЕВИДИМИЙ.

block see 1. блокувати, 2. блок, 3. брила, 4. ЗАМОРОЖУВАТИ, 5. ЗАТРИМУВАТИ, 6. ПЕРЕШКОДЖАТИ.

blonde see білявий.

blood see kpob.

bloody see 1. КРИВАВИЙ, 2. скривавлений.

blow see 1. дути, 2. удар, 3. віяти, 4.

ПРОДУВАТИ, **5**. хвастощі, **6**. видувати, **7**. розквіт, **8**. ПОДУВ, **9**. ЗВУЧАТИ, **10**. ДМУХАТИ, **11**. грати, **12**. гнати, **13**. стусан.

blowing see 1. видування, 2. вітряний, 3. ДУТТЯ, 4. КВІТУЧИЙ, 5. ПОДУВ.

blown see НАДУТИЙ.

**blue** *see* **1**. синій, **2**. блакитний, **3**. НЕБО (sky), **4**. синька, **5**. МОРЯК.

blues see блюз

board see 1. дошка, 2. борт, 3. ПЛАНШЕТ, 4. управління, 5. ПОЛИЦЯ (shelf), 6. КОМУТАТОР, 7. СЦЕНА.

**boat** *see* **1**. човен, **2**. корабель, **3**. судно, **4**.

bob see 1. Підстрибувати, 2. ТАНЦЮВАТИ, 3. ПОПЛАВЕЦЬ, 4. ГОЙДАТИСЯ, 5. гиря, 6. Вудити, 7. Приспів, 8. ЗАВИТОК.

bobby see Полісмен.

**bodily** *see* **1**. особисто, **2**. тілесний, **3**. ЦІЛКОМ, **4**. фізичний.

**body** *see* **1**. тіло, **2**. труп (corpse), **3**. тулуб, **4**. ПРЕДМЕТ.

**boiler** *see* **1**. бойлер, **2**. реторта, **3**. КАЗАН, **4**. КИП'ЯТИЛЬНИК, **5**. КОТЕЛ.

bold see 1. СМІЛИВИЙ, 2. САМОВПЕВНЕНИЙ, 3. ВИРАЗНИЙ, 4. ЗУХВАЛИЙ.

bolt see 1. болт, 2. втеча, 3. блискавка, 4. ЗАСУВ, 5. утікати, 6. шворінь.

**bomb** *see* **1**. бомба, **2**. ОБПРИСКУВАЧ, **3**. бомбардувати, **4**. МІНА.

**bond** *see* **1**. застава, **2**. ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАННЯ, **3**. поручитель.

bone see кістка.

**bonus** *see* **1**. премія, **2**. бонус.

book see 1. книга, 2. КНИЖКА.

booklet see 1. брошюра, 2. буклет.

boom see 1. бум, 2. гудіти, 3. ДЗИЖЧАННЯ, 4. ДЗИЖЧАТИ, 5. гул, 6. гудіння, 7. галас, 8. рекламувати.

boost see 1. рекламування, 2. ПІДВИЩЕННЯ, 3. підвищувати, 4. рекламувати.

boot see 1. черевик, 2. чобіт, 3. багажник.

**border** *see* **1**. кордон, **2**. межа, **3**. край, **4**. межувати, **5**. грань.

bore see 1. нудьга, 2. свердлити, 3. отвір (opening), 4. набридати, 5. НАБРИДНУТИ, 6. дірка, 7. бурити, 8. бор, 9. свердловина, 10. надокучати.

boredom see нудьга.

boring see 1. нудний, 2. буріння, 3. надокучливий, 4. СВЕРДЛІННЯ.

born see НАРОДИТИСЯ.

borrow see 1. позичати, 2. ПОЗИЧИТИ.

boss see 1. бос, 2. хазяїн, 3. ПІДПРИЄМЕЦЬ, 4. ПРОМАХ, 5. НАЧАЛЬНИК, 6. керувати, 7. ДЕСЯТНИК, 8. ГУЛЯ, 9. господар, 10. ПРОМАХНУТИСЯ.

**bother** *see* **1**. турбота, **2**. НЕПОКОЇТИ, **3**. турбуватися.

**bottle** *see* **1**. пляшка, **2**. флакон, **3**. бутель, **4**. ріжок.

ріжок. bottom see 1. дно, 2. низ, 3. сидіння, 4. НИЖНІЙ. bound see 1. зв'язаний, 2. ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАНИЙ, 3.

стримувати, 4. стрибок, 5. стрибати (jump), 6. скакати, 7. ОБМЕЖУВАТИ, 8. НЕОДМІННИЙ, 9. КОРДОН, 10.

ЗМУШЕНИЙ, 11. границя, 12. відскік, 13. вимушений, 14. МЕЖА.

boundary see 1. кордон, 2. МЕЖА, 3. границя. bourgeois see буржуазний.

bourgeoisie see буржуазія.

bow see 1. кланятися, 2. гнути, 3. дуга, 4. лук, 5. підкорятися, 6. СМИЧОК, 7. СХИЛЯТИСЯ, 8. уклін.

bowel see кишка.

bowl see 1. миска, 2. чаша, 3. унітаз, 4. КОТИТИ, 5. ваза, 6. КЕЛИХ.

bowler see КОТЕЛОК.

**box** *see* **1**. ящик, **2**. коробка, **3**. скриня, **4**. бокс, **5**. стійло, **6**. будка, **7**. КОЗЛИ, **8**. скринька.

**boxing** *see* **1**. бокс, **2**. тара, **3**. упаковка.

boy see 1. хлопець, 2. син, 3. парубок, 4. хлопчик. brain see мозок.

branch see 1. галузь, 2. гілка, 3. філіал.

**brand** *see* **1**. гатунок, **2**. таврувати, **3**. тавро, **4**. КЛЕЙМИТИ.

brandy see бренді.

brass see 1. латунь, 2. латунний.

brave see 1. сміливий, 2. хоробрий, 3. відважний, 4. МУЖНІЙ.

brazil see 1. бразілія, 2. БРАЗИЛІЯ.

**breach** *see* **1**. пролом, **2**. розрив, **3**. НЕЗГОДА, **4**. ПОРУШЕННЯ.

bread see хліб.

breadth see 1. ширина, 2. ПОЛОТНИЩЕ.

break see 1. ламати, 2. розбивати, 3. порушувати, 4. перерва, 5. пауза, 6. тріщина, 7. ПЕРЕРИВАТИ, 8. ОТВІР (opening), 9. ЗЛАМАТИ, 10. розбити, 11. розкол, 12. розоряти, 13. розривати.

breakfast see 1. сніданок, 2. снідати.

**breaking** *see* **1**. ДРОБЛЕННЯ, **2**. ПОЛОМКА, **3**. ПОЧАТОК.

breast see груди.

breath see 1. дихання, 2. подих, 3. ПОДУВ.

breathe see 1. дихати, 2. ВІЯТИ, 3. ІСНУВАТИ.

breathing see 1. дихання, 2. ПАХОЩІ, 3. ПОДИХ.

breed see 1. порода, 2. розводити, 3. розмножуватися, 4. плодитися, 5. виховувати,

**breeding** *see* **1**. вирощування, **2**. розведення, **3**. розмноження, **4**. скотарство.

breeze see НОВИНА.

**6**. виводити.

brick see 1. цегляний, 2. цегла, 3. цеглина.

bride see наречена.

**bridge** *see* **1**. міст, **2**. ПЕРЕКРИВАТИ, **3**. ПЕРЕМИЧКА, **4**. ПЕРЕНІССЯ.

**brief** *see* **1**. короткий, **2**. стислий, **3**. резюме, **4**. резюмувати.

brigade see 1. бригада, 2. КОМАНДА.

bright see 1. яскравий, 2. світлий, 3. яскраво, 4. ясний.

brilliant see 1. блискучий, 2. ДІАМАНТ.

bring see 1. приносити, 2. приводити, 3. доставляти, 4. принести, 5. ПЕРЕКОНУВАТИ, 6. ПРИВЕСТИ, 7. ПРИЗВОДИТИ.

brisk see 1. жвавий, 2. МЕТКИЙ.

broad see 1. широкий, 2. головний.

broadcasting see 1. трансляція, 2. радіопередача. broadly see широко.

brochure see брошура.

broken see 1. ламаний, 2. ПІДІРВАНИЙ, 3. ПОРУШЕНИЙ, 4. розбитий, 5. розорений.

**broker** *see* **1**. брокер, **2**. МАКЛЕР, **3**. АГЕНТ, **4**. ПОСЕРЕДНИК.

bronze see 1. бронза, 2. бронзовий.

brother see 1. брат, 2. ЗЕМЛЯК.

brow see 1. брова, 2. чоло.

**brown** *see* **1**. коричневий, **2**. КАРИЙ, **3**. Брунатний.

brush see 1. щітка, 2. ПЕНЗЕЛЬ.

brutal see 1. брутальний, 2. жорстокий, 3. грубий.

bucket see 1. відро, 2. черпати.

budget see бюджет.

buffer see 1. буфер, 2. АМОРТИЗАТОР.

**buffet** *see* **1**. ляпас, **2**. боротися, **3**. буфет, **4**. удар. **build** *see* **1**. будувати, **2**. споруджувати.

builder see будівник.

building see 1. будівля, 2. будинок, 3. споруда.

bulk see MACA (mass).

bull see 1. бик, 2. бугай, 3. бичачий.

bullet see 1. куля, 2. ядро.

bulletin see бюлетень.

bunch see 1. в'язка, 2. ПУЧОК.

bundle see 1. клунок, 2. в'язка, 3. ПУЧОК.

bungalow see бунгало.

**burden** *see* **1**. тягар, **2**. НАВАНТАЖУВАТИ, **3**. ПРИСПІВ, **4**. НОША, **5**. вантаж, **6**. вага, **7**. ОБТЯЖУВАТИ.

bureau see 1. бюро, 2. відділ, 3. управління.

bureaucracy see бюрократія.

bureaucratic see бюрократичний.

burglary see КРАДІЖКА.

burial see похорон (funeral).

burn see 1. палити, 2. опік, 3. випалювати, 4. спалювати, 5. ПАЛАТИ, 6. КЛЕЙМО, 7. ЗАГОРЯТИ, 8. горіти, 9. горіти, 10. таврувати.

burning see 1. горіння, 2. ОКИСЛЕННЯ.

burnt see 1. горілий, 2. палений.

burst see 1. вибух, 2. вибухнути, 3. ІМПУЛЬС.

bus see 1. автобус, 2. шина.

bush see 1. кущ, 2. чагарник.

**business** *see* **1**. бізнес, **2**. ДІЛО, **3**. ДІЛОВИЙ, **4**. ОБОВ'ЯЗОК, **5**. справа.

businessman see 1. бізнесмен, 2. ПІДПРИЄМЕЦЬ.

busv see 1. зайнятий, 2. ДІЯЛЬНИЙ.

but see 1. але, 2. а, 3. однак, 4. проте, 5. КРІМ, 6. та, 7. тільки.

butcher see 1. М'ЯСНИК, 2. убивця.

butler see Дворецький.

butter see масло.

butterfly see метелик.

**button** *see* **1**. кнопка, **2**. гудзик, **3**. застібати, **4**. брунька, **5**. ҐУДЗИК.

**buy** *see* **1**. купувати (purchase), **2**. покупка, **3**. КУПИТИ.

buyer see покупець.

by see 1. біля, 2. ДО, 3. за, 4. коло (circle), 5. по, 6. ПРИ

bye see бувай.

# C

**cab** *see* **1**. таксі, **2**. шпаргалка, **3**. КАБРІОЛЕТ, **4**. КЕБ.

**cabin** *see* **1**. каюта, **2**. салон, **3**. будка, **4**. КАБІНА, **5**. хатина.

**cabinet** *see* **1**. кабінет, **2**. КАМЕРА, **3**. ящик, **4**. уряд, **5**. КОРПУС, **6**. МІНІСТЕРСЬКИЙ.

**cable** see **1**. кабель, **2**. КАНАТ, **3**. телеграма.

cage see 1. клітка, 2. рибник, 3. КАБІНА.

**cake** *see* **1**. торт, **2**. кекс, **3**. тістечко, **4**. ЗЛИВОК, **5**. корж, **6**. ТАБЛЕТКА, **7**. брикет.

calcium see кальцій.

calculate see 1. підраховувати, 2.

КАЛЬКУЛЮВАТИ, **3**. ОБЧИСЛЮВАТИ, **4**. розраховувати.

**calculated** *see* **1**. розрахований, **2**. розрахунковий, **3**. НАВМИСНИЙ, **4**. ПІДРАХОВАНИЙ, **5**. умисний, **6**. ПРИДАТНИЙ.

calculation see 1. обчислення, 2. ПРОГНОЗ, 3. розрахунок, 4. ПІДРАХУНОК, 5. ОБМІРКУВАННЯ, 6. КОШТОРИС, 7. КАЛЬКУЛЯЦІЯ.

calendar see календар.

calf see 1. литка, 2. ТЕЛЯ.

call see 1. називати, 2. скликати, 3. звати, 4. НАЗВАТИ, 5. телефонувати, 6. ОКЛИК, 7. ЗАКЛИКАТИ, 8. гукати, 9. викликати, 10. виклик, 11. КЛИКАТИ.

**calling** *see* **1**. покликання, **2**. ПРОФЕСІЯ, **3**. скликання.

**calm** *see* **1**. спокійний, **2**. спокій, **3**. тихий, **4**. заспокоювати, **5**. тиша (silence).

calmly see спокійно.

**camera** *see* **1**. фотоапарат, **2**. КАМЕРА, **3**. КІНОАПАРАТ, **4**. КІНОКАМЕРА.

**camp** see табір.

**campaign** *see* **1**. кампанія, **2**. ПОХІД, **3**. ОПЕРАЦІЯ.

campus see КАМПУС.

can see 1. бляшанка, 2. ЗВІЛЬНИТИ, 3.КАНІСТРА, 4. КОНСЕРВУВАТИ, 5. МОГТИ, 6. бідон.

canal see 1. канал, 2. ПРОХІД.

cancel see 1. анулювати, 2. анулювання, 3. скасовувати, 4. стирати, 5. скасувати, 6. скасування, 7. скасовування, 8. ПОГАШАТИ, 9. закреслювати, 10. викреслювання, 11. закреслювання.

**cancellation** *see* **1**. анулювання, **2**. скасування, **3**. ПОГАШЕННЯ, **4**. викреслювання.

cancer see 1. рак, 2. бич, 3. лихо.

candidate see кандидат.

candle see свічка.

**canon** *see* **1**. Правило, **2**. Вухо (ear), **3**. КАНОН, **4**. Критерій.

canteen see 1. ЇДАЛЬНЯ, 2. ФЛЯГА, 3. буфет.

**canvas** *see* **1**. полотно, **2**. КАРТИНА (picture), **3**. МАРЛЯ, **4**. ПАРУСИНА, **5**. брезент.

сар see 1. шапка, 2. картуз, 3. берет, 4. кепі, 5. чарка, 6. перевершити, 7. КРИШКА, 8. кепка, 9. келих, 10. КАШКЕТ, 11. КАПТУР, 12. ЗАПЕЧАТУВАТИ, **13**. довершувати, **14**. завершувати.

**capability** *see* **1**. ЗДАТНІСТЬ, **2**. ЗДІБНІСТЬ, **3**. спроможність.

**capable** *see* **1**. здатний, **2**. здібний, **3**. обдарований, **4**. спроможний, **5**. умілий.

**capacity** *see* 1. місткість, **2**. продуктивність, **3**. СТАНОВИЩЕ, **4**. посада, **5**. обсяг, **6**. об'єм, **7**. НАВАНТАЖЕННЯ, **8**. КОМПЕТЕНЦІЯ.

**cape** *see* **1**. КАПЮШОН, **2**. МИС, **3**. ПЕЛЕРИНА, **4**. Плаш.

**capital** see 1. столиця, **2**. НАЙВАЖЛИВІШИЙ, **3**. столичний, **4**. ОСНОВНИЙ, **5**. КАПІТАЛ, **6**. головний, **7**. великий (big), **8**. КАПІТАЛЬНИЙ.

capitalism see капіталізм.

capitalist see 1. капіталіст, 2. КАПІТАЛІСТИЧНИЙ.

**captain** *see* **1**. капітан, **2**. ОЧОЛЮВАТИ, **3**. староста.

capture see 1. захоплення, 2. ЗАХОПИТИ.

**car** see 1. машина, 2. автомобіль, 3. вагонетка, 4. візок, 5. вагон.

caravan see 1. караван, 2. фургон.

carbon see вуглець.

card see 1. ПРОГРАМА, 2. КАРТА, 3. ПРОЧІСУВАТИ, 4. ПУБЛІКАЦІЯ, 5. КАРТКА, 6. КВИТОК, 7. листівка. cardboard see картон.

**care** *see* **1**. дбати, **2**. піклування, **3**. турбота, **4**. турбуватися, **5**. ОБЕРЕЖНІСТЬ, **6**. догляд.

career see 1. кар'єра, 2. гнати, 3. успіх.

careful see 1. старанний, 2. дбайливий, 3. точний (exact), 4. уважний, 5. АКУРАТНИЙ, 6. ОБЕРЕЖНИЙ, 7. турботливий.

**carefully** *see* **1**. ДБАЙЛИВО, **2**. ОБЕРЕЖНО, **3**. старанно.

**careless** *see* **1**. безтурботний, **2**. НЕДБАЛИЙ, **3**. НЕОБЕРЕЖНИЙ, **4**. легковажний.

cargo see вантаж.

carol see Колядка.

carpet see килим (rug).

**carriage** see 1. екіпаж, 2. транспорт, 3. транспортування, 4. ПЕРЕВЕЗЕННЯ, 5. рама, 6. КАРЕТКА, 7. вагонетка, 8. вагон, 9. шасі, 10. лафет.

carrier see 1. перевізник, 2. ПОСИЛЬНИЙ, 3. НОСИЛЬНИК, 4. КОНТЕЙНЕР, 5. багажник, 6. АВІАНОСЕЦЬ.

**carry** *see* **1**. возити, **2**. нести, **3**. носити, **4**. виконувати, **5**. ПЕРЕВОЗИТИ, **6**. ПЕРЕНОСИТИ, **7**. ПРОДОВЖУВАТИ, **8**. везти

cart see Bi3.

carter see візник.

case see 1. випадок (occasion), 2. ящик, 3. коробка,
4. скриня, 5. чохол, 6. чемодан, 7. футляр, 8. сумка, 9. АРГУМЕНТИ, 10. справа, 11. скринька, 12. ПОРАНЕНИЙ, 13. ПАЦІЄНТ,
14. ОБСТАВИНА, 15. валіза, 16. становище.

**cash** see 1. готівка, 2. КАШ, 3. гроші (money), 4. інкасувати.

cassette see касета.

**cast** *see* **1**. скидати, **2**. підраховувати, **3**. кидати, **4**. кидок, **5**. лити, **6**. ПІДРАХУНОК, **7**. МІНЯТИ, **8**. МЕТАННЯ, **9**. кидання, **10**. зразок, **11**. ЕКСКРЕМЕНТИ, **12**. втрачати, **13**. вихід, **14**. бракувати, **15**. МЕТАТИ.

casting see КИДАННЯ.

**castle** *see* **1**. ЗАМОК, **2**. палац, **3**. рокіруватися, **4**. фортеця, **5**. тура.

**casual** *see* **1**. випадковий, **2**. НЕДБАЛИЙ, **3**. НЕРЕГУЛЯРНИЙ, **4**. тимчасовий.

casually see випадково.

casualty see 1. аварія, 2. убитий.

cat see 1. кіт, 2. кішка.

**catalogue** *see* **1**. каталогізувати, **2**. ПРЕЙСКУРАНТ, **3**. КАТАЛОГ.

**catch** *see* **1**. ловити, **2**. ЗАТРИМАТИ, **3**. спіймати, **4**. схопити.

**catching** *see* **1**. ПРИВАБЛИВИЙ, **2**. ЗАХОПЛЮЮЧИЙ, **3**. ЗАРАЗЛИВИЙ.

**category** *see* **1**. категорія, **2**. КЛАС, **3**. розряд. **cathedral** *see* собор.

cattle see 1. худоба, 2. бидло, 3. корова (cow). causal see причинний.

**cause** *see* **1**. викликати, **2**. спричиняти, **3**. справа, **4**. причина, **5**. привід, **6**. ЗАВДАВАТИ, **7**. ПІДСТАВА.

**caution** see 1. обережність, 2. застереження, 3. застерігати, 4. порука, 5. ПОПЕРЕДЖЕННЯ, 6. попереджати, 7. обачність, 8. осторога.

cautious see 1. передбачливий, 2. ОБЕРЕЖНИЙ. cavalry see кавалерія.

cave see печера.

**cease** *see* **1**. припиняти, **2**. припинятися, **3**. ПЕРЕСТАВАТИ, **4**. ЗУПИНЯТИ, **5**. ПРИПИНИТИ.

ceiling see стеля.

celebrate see 1. святкувати, 2. ПРОСЛАВЛЯТИ. celebration see святкування.

**cell** *see* **1**. клітина, **2**. КАМЕРА, **3**. ОСЕРЕДОК, **4**. КЛІТКА, **5**. КАРЦЕР, **6**. КЕЛІЯ.

cellar see 1. льох, 2. ПОГРІБ.

**cement** *see* **1**. цемент, **2**. ЗАМАЗКА, **3**. цементувати.

cemetery see 1. кладовище, 2. цвинтар.

censorship see цензура.

census see перепис.

**central** *see* **1**. центральний, **2**. головний. **centre** *see* **1**. центр, **2**. ЗОСЕРЕДЖУВАТИ.

**century** see 1. сторіччя, 2. століття, 3. сотня, 4. **charter** see 1. статут, 2. фрахтувати, 3. хартія, 4. чартер, 5. ПАТЕНТ (patent). вік **ceremony** see 1. церемонія, 2. ОБРЯД. **chase** see 1. полювання, 2. полювати (hunt), 3. certain see 1. певний, 2. деякий, 3. безсумнівний, цькування, 4. розганяти, 5. ПРОГАНЯТИ, 6. 4. вірний (faithful), 5. впевнений, 6. надійний. ПЕРЕСЛІДУВАТИ, 7. ПЕРЕСЛІДУВАННЯ, гнатися, 9. виганяти, 10. ПОГОНЯ. certainly see 1. неодмінно, 2. звичайно, 3. chat see балакати. напевно, 4. безсумнівно, 5. авжеж, 6. аякже. cheap see 1. дешевий, 2. недорогий. certainty see упевненість. certificate see 1. посвідка, 2. сертифікат, 3. check see 1. перевіряти, 2. контролювати, 3. свідоцтво, 4. атестат, 5. ЗАСВІДЧУВАТИ, 6. ПЕРЕВІРКА. 4. КОНТРОЛЬ. checked see ПЕРЕВІРЕНИЙ. ПОСВІДЧЕННЯ. chain see 1. ланцюг, 2. ланцюжок. cheek see moka. chair see 1. стілець, 2. КАФЕДРА, 3. крісло, 4. cheerful see 1. бадьорий, 2. веселий. салжати cheese see сир. chairman see голова (head). chef see 1. шеф-кухар, 2. КУХАР. chalk see 1. крейда, 2. PAXУНОК. chemical see хімічний. challenge see 1. виклик, 2. вимагати, 3. відвід, 4. chemist see 1. АПТЕКАР, 2. хімік. ЗАПЕРЕЧУВАТИ, 5. ОСПОРЮВАТИ. chemistry see хімія. chamber see палата. cheque see чек. chamberlain see Kameprep. chest see 1. груди, 2. фонд, 3. скриня, 4. КАЗНА, champagne see шампанське. ящик. champion see чемпіон. chicken see 1. курка, 2. курча, 3. ПТАШЕНЯ. championship see 1. чемпіонат, 2. ЗАХИСТ chief see 1. шеф, 2. керівник, 3. головний, 4. (protection), 3. ПЕРШІСТЬ. начальник. 5. старший. 6. ОСНОВНИЙ. 7. chance see 1. шанс, 2. щастя, 3. МОЖЛИВІСТЬ, 4. НАЙВАЖЛИВІШИЙ. 8. КЕРІВНИЙ. 9. НАГОДА. директор, 10. глава, 11. лідер. chancellor see канцлер. child see 1. дитина, 2. НАЩАДОК, 3. СИН, 4. дітище, 5. ДИТЯ, 6. чадо, 7. дочка. **change** see 1. змінювати, 2. міняти, 3. здача, 4. зміна, 5. заміна, 6. ПЕРЕМІНА, 7. childhood see дитинство. розмінювати, 8. розмін, 9. обмінювати, 10. chill see 1. застуда, 2. холод, 3. ПРОСТУДА, 4. МІНЯТИСЯ, 11. ЗМІНЮВАТИСЯ, 12. холодний. ЗМІНИТИ, 13. переробляти. chimney see 1. димар, 2. КРАТЕР, 3. ДИМОХІД, channel see 1. канал, 2. ПРОТОКА, 3. шлях (way), комин. 4. фарватер, 5. стік, 6. річище, 7. ДЖЕРЕЛО chin see підборіддя. (origin, source), 8. виїмка, 9. русло. **chip** see 1. осколок, 2. КОЛОТИ, 3. скалка, 4. chaos see xaoc. стругати, 5. уламок. **chap** see 1. тріщина, 2. щока, 3. щілина, 4. chips see ОСКОЛКИ. хлопець (boy), 5. репатися, 6. щелепа. chocolate see 1. шоколад, 2. шоколадний. **chapel** see 1. каплиця, 2. МОЛИТОВНЯ. choice see 1. вибір, 2. альтернатива. **chapter** see 1. розділ, 2. глава, 3. КАПІТУЛ. choir see xop. character see 1. характер, 2. персонаж, 3. **choose** see 1. вибирати, 2. обирати, 3. вирішувати. репутація, 4. властивість, 5. вдача, 6. символ. **chord** see 1. струна, 2. хорда, 3. АКОРД. characteristic see 1. особливість, 2. характерний, chorus see 1. хор, 2. хором, 3. КОРДЕБАЛЕТ. 3. ОЗНАКА, 4. ТИПОВИЙ, 5. характеристика. **chosen** see 1. вибраний, 2. ОБРАНИЙ. charge see 1. заряд, 2. ЗАРЯДЖАТИ, 3. доручати. chronic see хронічний. charitable see 1. добродійний, 2. милосердний, 3. church see 1. церква, 2. храм (temple), 3. чуйний, 4. щедрий. церковний. charity see 1. благодійність, 2. ДОБРОДІЙНІСТЬ, churchyard see кладовище. МИЛОСЕРДЯ. cigarette see 1. цигарка, 2. сигарета. charm see 1. привабливість, 2. чарувати, 3. cinema see 1. КІНЕМАТОГРАФ, 2. чарівність, 4. чари, 5. принадність, 6. КІНЕМАТОГРАФІЯ. 3. КІНО. 4. ЗАЧАРУВАТИ, 7. ЗАЧАРОВУВАТИ, 8. KIHOTEATP.

circle see 1. коло, 2. круг, 3. гурток, 4. група

8. КРУГОВОРОТ.

(group), 5. галузь, 6. ОБЕРТАТИСЯ, 7. сфера,

шарм, 9. ПРИРУЧАТИ.

charming see 1. ЗАЧАРУВАННЯ, 2. чарівний.

chart see 1. таблиця, 2. діаграма, 3. схема.

circuit see КРУГООБІГ. circular see 1. круглий, 2. циркуляр, 3. ЦИРКУЛЯРНИЙ, 4. коловий, 5. круговий. circulation see 1. кругообіг, 2. ПОШИРЕННЯ, 3. тираж, 4. циркуляція, 5. КРУГООБЕРТАННЯ. circumstance see 1. обставина, 2. умови, 3. ДЕТАЛЬ, 4. ПОДРОБИЦЯ, 5. умова. citizen see 1. громадянин, 2. городянин, 3. городянка. citizenship see громадянство. city see місто. civic see 1. громадянський, 2. цивільний, 3. міський. civil see 1. громадянський, 2. чемний, 3. цивільний, 4. ввічливий, 5. цивілізований. civilian see 1. цивільний. 2. штатський. civilization see цивілізація. claim see 1. вимагати, 2. заявляти, 3. ТВЕРДЖЕННЯ, 4. РЕКЛАМАЦІЯ, 5. позов, 6. ЗАЯВКА, 7. ЗАЯВА, 8. ВИМОГА, 9. претензія. clarify see роз'яснювати. clarity see 1. ясність, 2. ПРОЗОРІСТЬ, 3. чистота. clash see 1. сутичка, 2. стукіт, 3. стикатися, 4. гул. class see 1. клас, 2. розряд, 3. сорт, 4. КЛАСОВИЙ, 5. КЛАСИФІКУВАТИ, 6. КАТЕГОРІЯ, 7. група (group). classic see 1. класичний, 2. ЗРАЗКОВИЙ, 3. КЛАСИК, 4. взірцевий. classical see 1. класичний, 2. гуманітарний. classification see 1. класифікація, 2. розподіл. classified see КЛАСИФІКОВАНИЙ. clause see 1. речення (sentence), 2. ПУНКТ, 3. стаття (article). **clav** see 1. глина. 2. ПРАХ. clean see 1. чистити. 2. чистий. 3. ПОЧИСТИТИ. cleaner see 1. ПРИБИРАЛЬНИК. 2. чистильник. cleaning see 1. ОЧИЩЕННЯ, 2. ПРИБИРАННЯ, чистка. clear see 1. ясний, 2. світлий, 3. ясно, 4. ПРОЗОРИЙ. 5. чистий. clearance see 1. очищення, 2. ПРОМІЖОК. clearing see чистка. clearly see 1. очевидно, 2. ясно. clergy see духовенство. clerical see 1. клерикальний. 2. КАНЦЕЛЯРСЬКИЙ. clerk see 1. клерк, 2. секретар, 3. чиновник. clever see 1. розумний (intelligent), 2. ЗДІБНИЙ, 3. ОБДАРОВАНИЙ, 4. СПРИТНИЙ, 5. вправний. client see 1. клієнт, 2. ЗАМОВНИК. cliff see 1. круча, 2. бескид. climate see 1. клімат, 2. АТМОСФЕРА (atmosphere). climax see 1. КЛІМАКС, 2. КУЛЬМІНАЦІЯ.

climb see 1. лізти, 2. дертися, 3. ПІДНІМАТИСЯ. clinic see 1. клініка, 2. лікарня (hospital). clinical see клінічний. cloak see плащ. clock see 1. годинник, 2. будильник. close see 1. зачиняти, 2. близько, 3. закривати, 4. самітний, 5. ПРИХОВАНИЙ, 6. поруч, 7. КОРОТКО, 8. КІНЧАТИ, 9. щільний, 10. КІНЕЦЬ, 11. близький, 12. ЗАМКНУТИЙ, 13. ЗАКРИТТЯ, **14**. ЗАКРИТИ, **15**. ЗАКІНЧУВАТИ, 16. ЗАКІНЧЕННЯ, 17. ЗАВЕРШЕННЯ, 18. ЗАЧИНИТИ, 19. ЗАКРИТИЙ. closed see 1. зачинений, 2. закритий, 3. замкнений, 4. ЗАКІНЧЕНИЙ. closely see 1. близько, 2. щільно, 3. уважно, 4. ретельно, 5. тісно. closing see ЗАКРИТТЯ. closure see 1. ЗАКРИТТЯ, 2. ПРИПИНЕННЯ. cloth see 1. полотно, 2. тканина, 3. скатерка, 4. скатертина, 5. сукно. clothes see 1. одяг, 2. білизна, 3. убрання, 4. вбрання, **5**. ОДЕЖА. clothing see 1. одяг, 2. ОДЕЖА. cloud see xmapa. club see 1. ключка, 2. клуб, 3. ціпок, 4. ПРИКЛАД, 5. ПАЛИЦЯ, 6. булава, 7. кийок. clue see 1. ДОКАЗ, 2. КЛЮЧ. cluster see 1. група (group), 2. пучок, 3. жмуток, 4. КЛАСТЕР, 5. купа, 6. РІЙ, 7. скупчення. coach see 1. репетитор, 2. тренер, 3. тренувати, 4. карета, **5**. вагон, **6**. АВТОБУС (bus). coal see 1. вугілля, 2. вугільний. coalition see коаліція. coarse see 1. грубий, 2. НЕОБРОБЛЕНИЙ, 3. НЕПРИСТОЙНИЙ, 4. КРУПНИЙ, 5. вульгарний. coast see 1. берег, 2. ПОБЕРЕЖЖЯ, 3. узбережжя. coastal see береговий. coat see 1. пальто, 2. піджак, 3. ПОКРИВАТИ. cocktail see коктейль. code see 1. кодекс, 2. код, 3. шифр, 4. КОДУВАТИ. coffee see кава. coffin see 1. труна, 2. ДОМОВИНА. coherent see 1. зв'язний, 2. розбірливий, 3. ясний, 3ЧЕПЛЕНИЙ, 5. ЗРОЗУМІЛИЙ, 6. ЗВ'ЯЗАНИЙ. coin see 1. карбувати, 2. монета, 3. створювати, 4. фабрикувати, 5. чеканити, 6. вигадувати. coincide see збігатися. coincidence see ЗБІГ. cold see 1. холод, 2. холодний, 3. застуда. coldly see холодно. colitis see коліт.

```
collaboration see 1. співпраця, 2. співробітництво. collapse see 1. руйнування, 2. КРАХ, 3. КОЛАПС, 4. КАТАСТРОФА, 5. ЗАГИБЕЛЬ, 6. руйнуватися.
```

**collar** *see* **1**. комір, **2**. комірець, **3**. НАШИЙНИК, **4**. хомут.

colleague see 1. колега, 2. співробітник.

collect see 1. збирати, 2. КОЛЕКЦІОНУВАТИ.

collected see 1. ЗОСЕРЕДЖЕНИЙ, 2. ЗІБРАНИЙ.

**collection** *see* **1**. колекція, **2**. ЗБИРАННЯ, **3**. збірка, **4**. ЗІБРАННЯ, **5**. скупчення.

collective see 1. колективний, 2. КОЛЕКТИВ.

**collector** *see* **1**. колекціонер, **2**. ЗБИРАЧ, **3**. КОЛЕКТОР.

**college** *see* **1**. коледж, **2**. університет, **3**. КОРПОРАЦІЯ.

**collision** *see* **1**. колізія, **2**. ЗІТКНЕННЯ, **3**. суперечність, **4**. сутичка.

colon see двокрапка.

colonial see колоніальний.

colony see 1. колонія, 2. ПОСЕЛЕННЯ.

**colour** *see* **1**. колір, **2**. барва, **3**. забарвлення.

coloured see 1. пофарбований, 2. КОЛЬОРОВИЙ. colourful see барвистий.

**column** *see* **1**. колона, **2**. КОЛОНКА, **3**. графа, **4**. стовп.

**combat** *see* **1**. бій, **2**. битва (battle), **3**. боротися, **4**. боротьба.

combination see 1. комбінація, 2. спілка.

combine see 1. об'єднання, 2. ОБ'ЄДНУВАТИСЯ, 3. ОБ'ЄДНУВАТИ, 4. КОМБІНУВАТИ, 5. КОМБАЙН.

combined see 1. КОМБІНОВАНИЙ, 2. ОБ'ЄДНАНИЙ.

come see 1. приходити, 2. відбуватися, 3.
 ПРИЇЖДЖАТИ, 4. траплятися, 5. ставати, 6.
 ПРИЇЗДИТИ, 7. ПРИБУВАТИ (arrive), 8.
 НАСТАВАТИ, 9. ДОХОДИТИ, 10. ПРИЙТИ.
 comedy see комедія.

**comfort** *see* **1**. комфорт, **2**. утішати, **3**. утіха, **4**. ЗАСПОКОЮВАТИ.

comfortable see 1. комфортабельний, 2. ЗРУЧНИЙ.

comic see 1. комічний, 2. смішний.

**coming** *see* **1**. майбутній, **2**. очікуваний, **3**. ПРИШЕСТЯ.

**command** *see* **1**. наказувати, **2**. КОМАНДУВАТИ, **3**. НАКАЗ.

**commander** *see* **1**. командир, **2**. КОМАНДУЮЧИЙ.

**comment** *see* **1**. коментар, **2**. коментувати, **3**. КОМЕНТУВАННЯ, **4**. тлумачення, **5**. тлумачити.

**commentary** *see* **1**. коментар, **2**. КОМЕНТАРІЙ. **commerce** *see* **1**. комерція, **2**. торгівля, **3**. спілкування.

commercial see 1. комерційний, 2. торговий.

commission see 1. комісія, 2. ДОРУЧЕННЯ.

commissioner see 1. спецуповноважений, 2. KOMICAP.

**commit** *see* 1. вчиняти, 2. доручати, 3. піддавати. **commitment** *see* 1. вручення, 2. вчинення, 3.

ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАННЯ, 4. ув'язнення.

committee see комітет.

commodity see 1. товар, 2. ПРОДУКТ.

common see 1. загальний, 2. спільний, 3. громадський, 4. ЗВИЧАЙНИЙ, 5. ПОШИРЕНИЙ.

**commonly** *see* **1**. ДЕШЕВО, **2**. ЗВИЧАЙНО, **3**. ПОГАНО, **4**. ПРОСТО.

commonwealth see 1. держава (state), 2.

співдружність, **3**. федерація. **communal** *see* **1**. комунальний, **2**. ОБЩИННИЙ.

communicate see 1. повідомляти, 2.

ПЕРЕДАВАТИ, 3. спілкуватися.

**communication** *see* **1**. повідомлення, **2**. зв'язок, **3**. КОМУНІКАЦІЯ, **4**. сполучення.

**communion** *see* **1**. спілкування, **2**. спільність, **3**. ПРИЧАСТЯ.

communism see комунізм.

communist see комуніст.

**community** *see* **1**. громада, **2**. ОБЩИНА, **3**. суспільство (society).

**compact** see 1. компактний, 2. щільний, 3. угода, 4. ущільнювати.

companion see 1. компаньйон, 2. товариш.

**company** see 1. компанія, 2. товариство.

comparable see порівняний.

comparative see 1. порівняльний, 2. відносний.

comparatively see відносно.

**compare** see 1. порівнювати, 2. ПОРІВНЯТИ.

comparison see порівняння.

compartment see 1. купе, 2. відділення, 3. відсік.

compass see 1. компас, 2. ДІАПАЗОН.

compassion see жалість.

compatible see 1. сумісний, 2. сполучний.

compensate see 1. компенсувати, 2.

винагороджувати, 3. відшкодовувати, 4. відшкодувати.

compensation see 1. компенсація, 2. винагорода.

**compete** *see* **1**. конкурувати, **2**. ЗМАГАТИСЯ.

**competence** *see* **1**. компетентність, **2**. ПРАВОМОЧНІСТЬ, **3**. уміння.

competent see 1. компетентний, 2. ПРАВОМОЧНИЙ.

competition see 1. конкуренція, 2. ЗМАГАННЯ, 3. КОНКУРС.

competitive see 1. КОНКУРЕНТНИЙ, 2. КОНКУРУЮЧИЙ.

competitor see 1. конкурент, 2. суперник. complain see 1. скаржитися, 2. НАРІКАТИ.

complaint see 1. скарга, 2. НЕВДОВОЛЕННЯ. complementary see додатковий.

**complete** *see* **1**. закінчувати, **2**. повний, **3**. ДОПОВНЮВАТИ, **4**. ЗАКІНЧЕНИЙ.

completely see 1. цілком, 2. повністю.

completion see завершення.

complex see 1. комплекс, 2. комплексний, 3. складний, 4. складовий, 5. ЗАПЛУТАНИЙ.

complexity see 1. складність, 2. ЗАПЛУТАНІСТЬ. compliance see 1. згода, 2. ПІДДАТЛИВІСТЬ, 3.

ПОСТУПЛИВІСТЬ. complicated see 1. складний, 2. заплутаний, 3. УСКЛАДНЕНИЙ.

**comply** *see* **1**. погоджуватися, **2**. ПІДКОРЯТИСЯ, **3**. ПОСТУПАТИСЯ, **4**. виконувати.

**component** see 1. складовий, 2. КОМПОНЕНТ. **composer** see композитор.

**composite** *see* **1**. складений, **2**. складний, **3**. суміш. **composition** *see* **1**. склад, **2**. твір, **3**. КОМПОЗИШЯ.

compound see 1. суміш, 2. ЗМІШУВАТИ, 3. склад, 4. складений, 5. складний, 6. складовий, 7. сполучати, 8. З'ЄДНУВАТИ.

**comprehension** *see* **1**. тямущість, **2**. розуміння, **3**. ОХОПЛЕННЯ, **4**. включення.

**comprehensive** see 1. всебічний, 2. всеосяжний, 3. ОХОПЛЮЮЧИЙ, 4. тямущий.

**compression** *see* **1**. стискання, **2**. ЗДАВЛЮВАННЯ, **3**. КОМПРЕСІЯ.

compromise see 1. компроміс, 2. компрометувати. compulsory see 1. обов'язковий, 2. ПРИМУСОВИЙ.

**computer** *see* **1**. комп'ютер, **2**. лічильник, **3**. ОБЧИСЛЮВАЧ.

**conceal** *see* **1**. приховувати, **2**. ховати, **3**. затаювати.

**concentrate** *see* **1**. концентрувати, **2**. зосереджувати, **3**. КОНЦЕНТРАТ, **4**. КОНЦЕНТРУВАТИСЯ.

concentrated see КОНЦЕНТРОВАНИЙ.

**concentration** *see* **1**. концентрація, **2**. ЗГУЩЕННЯ, **3**. ЗОСЕРЕДЖЕННЯ.

**concept** see 1. поняття, 2. концепція, 3. ідея.

conception see 1. концепція, 2. ЗАДУМ, 3.

ЗАПЛІДНЕННЯ, 4. ПОНЯТТЯ, 5. розуміння. concern see 1. стосуватися, 2. концерн, 3.

занепокоєння, **4**. важливість, **5**. СТОСУНОК, **6**. ТУРБОТА, **7**. ТУРБУВАТИ, **8**. ФІРМА, **9**. ІНТЕРЕС.

**concerned** *see* **1**. ЗАЦІКАВЛЕНИЙ, **2**. стосується. **concert** *see* **1**. концерт, **2**. ДОМОВЛЯТИСЯ, **3**. ЗГОДА.

concession see 1. концесія, 2. ПОСТУПКА. conclude see 1. вирішувати, 2. ЗАВЕРШУВАТИ, 3. ЗАКІНЧУВАТИ, 4. закінчуватися, 5. укладати.

**conclusion** *see* **1**. висновок, **2**. закінчення, **3**. ЗАВЕРШЕННЯ, **4**. результат, **5**. укладення.

**concrete** *see* **1**. бетон, **2**. конкретний, **3**. бетонний. **condition** *see* **1**. умова, **2**. стан, **3**. становище.

conditional see 1. умовний, 2. ОБУМОВЛЕНИЙ.

conduct see 1. вести, 2. поведінка, 3. проводити, 4. водити, 5. КЕРУВАТИ, 6. ПРОВЕСТИ.

**conductor** *see* **1**. кондуктор, **2**. провідник, **3**. гід, **4**. ДИРИГЕНТ, **5**. КЕРІВНИК.

**confederation** *see* **1**. федерація, **2**. КОНФЕДЕРАЦІЯ, **3**. союз.

conference see 1. з'їзд, 2. конференція.

**confession** *see* **1**. визнання, **2**. ЗІЗНАННЯ, **3**. сповідь.

**confidence** *see* **1**. довір'я, **2**. самовпевненість, **3**. ДОВІРА.

confident see 1. довірливий, 2. упевнений.

**confidential** *see* **1**. КОНФІДЕНЦІАЛЬНИЙ, **2**. КОНФІДЕНЦІЙНИЙ, **3**. секретний.

configuration see конфігурація.

**confined** *see* **1**. ув'язнений, **2**. ОБМЕЖЕНИЙ, **3**. вузький.

**confirm** *see* 1. підтверджувати, 2. ратифікувати, 3. ЗАТВЕРДЖУВАТИ, 4. ЗАТВЕРДИТИ, 5. ПІДТВЕРДИТИ, 6. стверджувати.

confirmation see підтвердження.

**confirmed** *see* **1**. ЗАКОРЕНІЛИЙ, **2**. ПЕРЕКОНАНИЙ.

**conflict** see 1. конфлікт, 2. КОНФЛІКТУВАТИ, 3. сутичка.

**conform** *see* **1**. пристосовуватися, **2**. узгоджуватися, **3**. ПІДКОРЯТИСЯ, **4**. ПРИСТОСОВУВАТИ.

**confront** *see* **1**. ПРОТИСТОЯТИ, **2**. ПОРІВНЮВАТИ, **3**. КОНФРОНТУВАТИ, **4**. ЗІСТАВЛЯТИ.

**confrontation** *see* **1**. конфронтація, **2**. ПРОТИБОРСТВО.

confused see сплутаний.

**confusion** *see* **1**. збентеження, **2**. ПЛУТАНИНА, **3**. безладдя, **4**. ЗАМІШАННЯ.

**congregation** see 1. збори (meeting), 2. сходка, 3. ПАСТВА.

congress see 1. з'їзд, 2. конгрес.

**connected** *see* **1**. 3В'ЯЗАНИЙ, **2**. 3В'ЯЗНИЙ, **3**. сполучений.

connection see 1. зв'язок, 2. сполучення.

**conquest** see 1. завоювання, 2. підкорення.

**conscience** *see* **1**. совість, **2**. свідомість, **3**. сумління.

conscious see свідомий.

consciously see свідомо.

consciousness see 1. свідомість, 2. самосвідомість. consecutive see послідовний.

**consensus** *see* **1**. згода, **2**. КОНСЕНСУС, **3**. ПОГОДЖЕНІСТЬ.

**consent** *see* **1**. дозвіл, **2**. погоджуватися, **3**. ЗГОДА.

**consequence** *see* **1**. наслідок (outcome), **2**. важливість, **3**. висновок, **4**. ЗНАЧЕННЯ.

consequent see 1. послідовний, 2. НАСЛІДОК (outcome), 3. результат.

consequently see отже.

**conservation** *see* **1**. зберігання, **2**. КОНСЕРВУВАННЯ.

conservative see 1. консерватор, 2. консервативний.

**consider** *see* **1**. вважати, **2**. розглядати, **3**. враховувати, **4**. ОБГОВОРЮВАТИ.

considerable see 1. значний, 2. чималий, 3. важливий.

considerably see 3HA4HO.

**consideration** *see* **1**. розгляд, **2**. ОБГОВОРЕННЯ, **3**. ЗАПОБІГЛИВІСТЬ, **4**. КОМПЕНСАЦІЯ, **5**. відшкодування, **6**. МІРКУВАННЯ.

**consist** *see* **1**. полягати, **2**. складатися, **3**. ЗБІГАТИСЯ.

**consistency** *see* 1. послідовність, 2. узгодженість, 3. логічність, 4. постійність.

**consistent** *see* **1**. сумісний, **2**. твердий, **3**. ПОСЛІДОВНИЙ.

consolation see втіха.

**consolidation** *see* **1**. консолідація, **2**. ЗАТВЕРДІННЯ, **3**. ЗМІЦНЕННЯ.

consortium see консорціум.

**conspicuous** *see* **1**. помітний, **2**. ПОКАЗНИЙ, **3**. видатний, **4**. видимий.

conspiracy see 1. ЗМОВА, 2. КОНСПІРАЦІЯ. constable see 1. констебль, 2. ПОЛІЦЕЙСЬКИЙ. constant see 1. сталий, 2. постійний, 3. константа. constantly see постійно.

constituency see виборці.

**constituent** *see* 1. виборець, 2. складовий, 3. установчий.

**constitute** *see* **1**. засновувати, **2**. ПРИЗНАЧАТИ, **3**. складати.

constitution see 1. конституція, 2. статут. constitutional see конституційний.

**constraint** *see* **1**. ОБМЕЖЕННЯ, **2**. ПРИМУС, **3**. скутість.

**construct** *see* **1**. будувати, **2**. створювати, **3**. споруджувати, **4**. ПОБУДУВАТИ, **5**. ЗБУДУВАТИ.

**construction** *see* **1**. будівництво, **2**. конструкція, **3**. побудова, **4**. будова, **5**. будування, **6**. споруда, **7**. будівля.

**constructive** *see* **1**. творчий, **2**. конструктивний, **3**. будівельний.

**consult** see 1. радитися, 2. довідуватися. **consultant** see консультант.

consultation see 1. консультація, 2. нарада, 3. КОНСИЛІУМ.

consultative see консультативний.

consumer see споживач.

**consumption** see 1. споживання, 2. ЗАТРАТА. **contact** see 1. контакт, 2. КОНТАКТУВАТИ, 3. ЗВ'ЯЗОК.

contain see 1. містити, 2. стримувати.

**container** *see* **1**. контейнер, **2**. вмістилище, **3**. резервуар.

**contamination** *see* **1**. забруднення, **2**. ЗАРАЖЕННЯ, **3**. ОСКВЕРНЕННЯ.

contemplate see 1. ОБДУМУВАТИ, 2. споглядати, 3. МІРКУВАТИ.

contemporary see сучасний.

**contempt** *see* **1**. Зневага, **2**. ПРЕЗИРСТВО. **content** *see* **1**. ЗАДОВОЛЕННЯ, **2**. суть, **3**. ОБСЯГ, **4**. ЗМІСТ, **5**. ЗАДОВОЛЬНЯТИ, **6**. ЗАДОВОЛЕНИЙ, **7**. вміст, **8**. ЗГОДНИЙ.

contention see твердження.

contents see 1. BMict, 2. 3Mict.

**contest** *see* **1**. конкурс, **2**. суперечка, **3**. сперечатися, **4**. ЗМАГАТИСЯ, **5**. ЗМАГАННЯ.

context see 1. контекст, 2. ситуація.

**continent** *see* **1**. континент, **2**. МАТЕРИК, **3**. стриманий.

continental see континентальний.

continual see 1. безперервний, 2. постійний.

continually see безперервно.

**continuation** *see* **1**. продовження, **2**. ПОНОВЛЕННЯ.

**continue** *see* **1**. продовжувати, **2**. ПРОДОВЖИТИ, **3**. тривати.

**continuity** *see* 1. безперервність, **2**. сценарій, **3**. безперебійність.

continuous see безперервний.

continuously see 1. безперервно, 2. ПОСТІЙНО.

**contract** see 1. контракт, 2. договір, 3. угода, 4. стискати

contraction see 1. скорочення, 2. стискання. contractor see підрядчик.

contractual see договірний.

**contradiction** *see* **1**. суперечність, **2**. НЕВІДПОВІДНІСТЬ, **3**. ПРОТИРІЧЧЯ, **4**. розходження.

contradictory see 1. суперечливий, 2. НЕСУМІСНИЙ.

**contrary** *see* **1**. протилежний, **2**. протилежне, **3**. НЕСПРИЯТЛИВИЙ.

contrast see 1. КОНТРАСТ, 2. ПОРІВНЮВАТИ. contribute see 1. вносити, 2. ЖЕРТВУВАТИ, 3. співробітничати, 4. сприяйте.

**contribution** *see* **1**. внесок, **2**. співробітництво, **3**. вклад, **4**. КОНТРИБУЦІЯ.

control see 1. контролювати, 2. контроль, 3. стримувати, 4. управління, 5. КЕРУВАННЯ, 6. КЕРУВАТИ. controller see 1. КОНТРОЛЕР, 2. ревізор. controversial see 1. спірний, 2. ДИСКУСІЙНИЙ, 3. ПОЛЕМІЧНИЙ.

**controversy** *see* **1**. суперечка, **2**. ДИСКУСІЯ, **3**. сварка.

**convenience** *see* **1**. зручність, **2**. вигода. **convenient** *see* **1**. зручний, **2**. ПРИДАТНИЙ.

**convention** *see* **1**. договір, **2**. звичай, **3**. з'їзд, **4**. КОНВЕНЦІЯ.

conventional see 1. ЗАГАЛЬНОПРИЙНЯТИЙ, 2. ЗВИЧАЙНИЙ, 3. ОБУМОВЛЕНИЙ, 4. умовний.

conversation see 1. бесіда, 2. розмова.

conversely see протилежно.

conversion see перетворення.

convert see 1. конвертувати, 2. перетворювати.

**convey** *see* **1**. транспортувати, **2**. виражати, **3**. ПЕРЕВОЗИТИ, **4**. ПЕРЕДАВАТИ, **5**. ПОВІДОМЛЯТИ.

**conviction** *see* **1**. упевненість, **2**. ПЕРЕКОНАННЯ, **3**. ЗАСУДЖЕННЯ, **4**. ПЕРЕКОНАНІСТЬ.

**convince** *see* **1**. переконувати, **2**. ЗАПЕВНЯТИ, **3**. ПЕРЕКОНАТИ.

**convoy** *see* **1**. конвой, **2**. КОНВОЮВАТИ, **3**. транспорт, **4**. супроводити, **5**. супроводжувати.

**cook** *see* **1**. кухар, **2**. варити, **3**. куховарити, **4**. готувати, **5**. кухарка, **6**. пекти.

**cooker** *see* **1**. піч, **2**. КАСТРУЛЯ, **3**. ПЛИТА. **cooking** *see* варка.

**cool** see 1. охолоджувати, 2. прохолодний, 3. ОХОЛОДИТИ.

**cooper** see 1. бондар, 2. ДЕГУСТАТОР.

**cooperation** *see* 1. співпраця, 2. КООПЕРАЦІЯ. **cooperative** *see* 1. кооперативний, 2. кооператив. **cope** *see* 1. риза, 2. ПОКРИВАТИ, 3. справитися,

4. справлятися.

coping see вкриття.

copper see 1. мідь, 2. МІДНИЙ.

**сору** see 1. копія, 2. примірник, 3. переписувати, 4. екземпляр, 5. копіювати, 6. рукопис.

cord see шнур.

core see 1. ядро, 2. сердечник.

**corn** *see* **1**. зерно, **2**. кукурудза, **3**. ЗБІЖЖЯ, **4**. МАЇС, **5**. хліб (bread).

**corner** *see* **1**. кут (angle), **2**. куток, **3**. ЗАКУТОК, **4**. ріг.

coronary see КОРОНАРНИЙ.

coronation see коронація.

coroner see коронер.

**corporate** *see* **1**. корпоративний, **2**. спільний. **corporation** *see* **1**. корпорація, **2**. ОБ'ЄДНАННЯ. **corps** *see* **1**. корпус, **2**. служба.

corpse see труп.

**corpus** see 1. збірник, 2. КОДЕКС, 3. тіло (body).

correct see 1. виправляти, 2. правильний, 3. виправити, 4. вірний (faithful), 5. коректний, 6. точний (exact).

**correction** *see* **1**. корекція, **2**. поправка, **3**. виправлення, **4**. ПОКАРАННЯ.

correctly see правильно.

correlation see 1. співвідношення, 2. КОРЕЛЯШЯ.

**correspondence** *see* **1**. відповідність, **2**. АНАЛОГІЯ, **3**. КОРЕСПОНДЕНЦІЯ, **4**. співвідношення.

correspondent see 1. кореспондент, 2. КОРЕСПОНДЕНТСЬКИЙ.

corresponding see 1. відповідний (appropriate), 2. ПОДІБНИЙ.

corridor see коридор.

**corruption** *see* **1**. корупція, **2**. продажність, **3**. гниття, **4**. ПСУВАННЯ, **5**. розбещеність.

**cost** *see* **1**. коштувати, **2**. вартість (value), **3**. ціна. **costly** *see* **1**. дорогий, **2**. коштовний, **3**. розкішний,

цінний.
 costs see витрати.

costume see KOCTIOM.

cosy see затишний.

cottage see котедж.

**cotton** *see* **1**. бавовна, **2**. бавовняний, **3**. вата, **4**. бавовник.

council see 1. консиліум, 2. нарада, 3. рада. councillor see радник.

**counsel** *see* **1**. порада, **2**. радити, **3**. обговорення, **4**. нарада, **5**. рекомендувати, **6**. рішення, **7**. рада.

**counsellor** *see* **1**. адвокат, **2**. вихователь, **3**. радник. **count** *see* **1**. рахувати, **2**. підрахунок, **3**. лічити, **4**.

count see 1. рахувати, 2. підрахунок, 3. лічити, 4 РАХУНОК, 5. підсумок, 6. ВВАЖАТИ, 7. полічити.

counter see 1. прилавок, 2. протилежний, 3. суперечити, 4. протидіяти, 5. МАРКА, 6. лічильник, 7. ЗУСТРІЧНИЙ, 8. ЗВОРОТНИЙ, 9. фішка.

**counterpart** *see* **1**. дублікат, **2**. ДВІЙНИК, **3**. КОПІЯ.

countless see НЕЗЛІЧЕННИЙ.

**country** *see* **1**. село, **2**. батьківщина, **3**. країна, **4**. сільський, **5**. МІСЦЕВІСТЬ, **6**. ПРОВІНЦІЯ.

county see 1. графство, 2. ОКРУГ.

**couple** *see* **1**. пара, **2**. з'єднувати.

coupon see 1. купон, 2. талон.

**courage** *see* **1**. мужність, **2**. хоробрість, **3**. відвага, **4**. СМІЛИВІСТЬ.

course see 1. курс, 2. напрям, 3. течія, 4. хід.

**court** see 1. суд, 2. подвір'я, 3. корт, 4.

женихатися, **5**. спокушати, **6**. залицятися, **7**. женихання, **8**. ДВІР, **9**. залицяння.

courtesy see 1. ввічливість, 2. чемність.

courtyard see ДВІР.

cousin see 1. КУЗИНА, 2. родич, 3. КУЗЕН.

covenant see 1. угода, 2. договір.

cover see 1. обкладинка, 2. покривати, 3. кришка, 4. футляр, 5. страхувати, 6. ПОКРИТИ, 7. НАКРИВАТИ, 8. НАКРИТИ, 9. захищати, 10. вкривати, 11. ОХОПЛЮВАТИ.

coverage see 1. ОХОПЛЕННЯ, 2. ПОКРИТТЯ. covered see ЗАХИЩЕНИЙ.

**cow** *see* **1**. корова, **2**. худоба (cattle), **3**. бидло, **4**. тероризувати.

**crack** see 1. тріск, 2. тріщина, 3. тріскатися, 4. тріщати.

**craft** see 1. ремесло, 2. вправність, 3. хитрість, 4. цех, 5. уміння, 6. судно, 7. літак, 8. ОБМАН.

**crash** *see* 1. катастрофа, **2**. ПАДАТИ (fall), **3**. ПОЛОМКА, **4**. КРАХ, **5**. гуркіт, **6**. банкрутство, **7**. тріск.

**crazy** *see* **1**. божевільний, **2**. безумний, **3**. схиблений, **4**. хиткий.

**cream** see 1. вершки, 2. крем, 3. ПІНА, 4. сметана, 5. ПІНИТИСЯ.

**create** *see* **1**. створювати, **2**. творити, **3**. ВИКЛИКАТИ, **4**. СТВОРИТИ, **5**. ХВИЛЮВАТИСЯ.

**creation** see 1. творіння, 2. створення, 3. утворення, 4. творення, 5. твір, 6. створіння, 7. втілення, 8. створювання.

creative see творчий.

**creature** *see* **1**. створіння, **2**. тварина (animal, beast), **3**. творення, **4**. ставленик.

**credit** *see* 1. кредит, **2**. довіряти, **3**. кредитувати, **4**. віра (faith), **5**. ДОВІРА, **6**. ДОВІР'Я.

creditor see кредитор.

**creed** *see* **1**. переконання, **2**. віросповідання, **3**. КРЕДО.

crest see 1. гребінець, 2. гребінь.

**crew** *see* **1**. екіпаж, **2**. бригада, **3**. КОМАНДА. **cricket** *see* крикет.

crime see злочин.

**criminal** *see* **1**. злочинець, **2**. злочинний, **3**. карний, **4**. КРИМІНАЛЬНИЙ.

crisis see криза.

criterion see 1. критерій, 2. МІРИЛО.

critic see 1. критик, 2. КРИТИКАН.

**critical** *see* **1**. критичний, **2**. ПЕРЕЛОМНИЙ, **3**. ризикований, **4**. НЕБЕЗПЕЧНИЙ, **5**. вирішальний.

criticism see критика.

critique see критика.

crop see 1. врожай, 2. сіяти, 3. урожай.

cross see 1. переходити, 2. перетинати, 3. хрест, 4. розп'яття, 5. християнство, 6. схрещувати, 7. протидіяти, 8. перехресний, 9. поперечний, 10. розминутися.

**crossing** *see* **1**. схрещування, **2**. ПЕРЕПРАВА, **3**. ПЕРЕТИН, **4**. ПЕРЕХРЕСТЯ.

**crowd** *see* **1**. натовп, **2**. юрба, **3**. юрбитися, **4**. товпитися.

crowded see переповнений.

**crown** *see* **1**. вінець, **2**. крона, **3**. коронувати, **4**. корона, **5**. вінок, **6**. винагороджувати, **7**. гребінь.

crucial see 1. критичний, 2. вирішальний.

crude see 1. сирий, 2. грубий, 3.

НЕОБРОБЛЕНИЙ, 4. НЕСТИГЛИЙ.

cruel see 1. жорстокий, 2. болісний.

cruelty see 1. жорстокість, 2. безсердечність.

cruise see 1. крейсувати, 2. КРУЇЗ.

crust see 1. кірка, 2. ПАНЦИР, 3. КОРА.

**cry** *see* **1**. плакати, **2**. крик, **3**. кричати, **4**. КРИКНУТИ, **5**. ПЛАЧ.

crying see КРИЧУЩИЙ.

**crystal** *see* **1**. кришталевий, **2**. кришталь, **3**. КРИСТАЛІЧНИЙ.

cult see 1. культ, 2. віросповідання.

**cultivation** *see* **1**. культивування, **2**. ОБРОБІТОК, **3**. розведення, **4**. розвиток, **5**. КУЛЬТИВАЦІЯ. **cultural** *see* **1**. культурний, **2**. ОБРОБЛЮВАНИЙ.

**culture** *see* **1**. культура, **2**. розведення, **3**. ОБРОБІТОК.

**cumulative** *see* **1**. нагромаджений, **2**. КУМУЛЯТИВНИЙ, **3**. сукупний.

сир see 1. чашка, 2. КУБОК.

cupboard see 1. буфет, 2. шафа, 3. сервант.

cure see 1. лікування, 2. ліки, 3.

КОНСЕРВУВАТИ, 4. ЗЦІЛЯТИ, 5. ЗАГОТОВЛЯТИ, 6. вилікувати, 7. виліковувати, 8. лікувати, 9. вилікування.

**curiosity** *see* **1**. цікавість, **2**. ДОПИТЛИВІСТЬ, **3**. ДИВИНА.

curious see 1. допитливий, 2. ДИВНИЙ, 3. ЗАЦІКАВЛЕНИЙ, 4. КУРЙОЗНИЙ, 5. цікавий.

currency see 1. валюта, 2. тривалість.

**current** see 1. поточний, 2. сучасний, 3. течія, 4. струм.

curriculum see розклад.

curtain see 1. завіса, 2. занавіска.

**curve** *see* **1**. згинатися, **2**. КРИВА, **3**. гнути, **4**. лекало, **5**. ЗГИНАТИ.

**custody** *see* **1**. ув'язнення, **2**. схов, **3**. ПІКЛУВАННЯ, **4**. ОХОРОНА, **5**. ОПІКУНСТВО, **6**. ОПІКУВАННЯ, **7**. ОПІКА, **8**. ЗБЕРІГАННЯ.

**custom** *see* **1**. звичай, **2**. кліснтура, **3**. звичка, **4**. МИТНИЙ, **5**. покупці, **6**. ЗАМОВЛЕННЯ.

customary see 1. звичайний, 2. ЗВИЧНИЙ.

**customer** *see* **1**. клієнт, **2**. покупець (buyer), **3**. замовник.

customs see мито.

**cut** *see* **1**. різати, **2**. фасон, **3**. стригти, **4**. скорочувати, **5**. розріз, **6**. ПОРІЗАТИ, **7**.

480 ПОРІЗАНИЙ, 8. ПОРІЗ, 9. КРОЇТИ, 10. КАСТРОВАНИЙ, 11. ЗНИЖЕНИЙ, 12. cutting see 1. різання, 2. ЗМЕНШЕННЯ. cycle see 1. цикл, 2. велосипед (bicycle), 3. cylinder see 1. циліндр, 2. балон, 3. барабан. cynical see цинічний. D dad see 1. тато, 2. татко. daddy see 1. татко, 2. тато, 3. татусь. daft see 1. ідіотський, 2. легковажний, 3. ДУРНИЙ, 4. божевільний, 5. НЕДОУМКУВАТИЙ. daily see 1. щоденний, 2. щодня, 3. ДЕННИЙ. dairy see 1. молочарня, 2. МАСЛОРОБНЯ. dale see долина (valley). damage see 1. шкода, 2. пошкоджувати, 3. шкодити, 4. ЗБИТКИ, 5. ПОШКОДЖЕННЯ. dame see 1. пані, 2. ДАМА. damn see 1. лаятися, 2. ПРОКЛІН, 3. прокляття. damp see 1. вологий, 2. сирий, 3. ПРИТУПЛЯТИ, 4. ПОСЛАБЛЮВАТИ, 5. ЗУПИНЯТИ, 6. ЗМОЧУВАТИ, 7. вогкий, 8. вологість. dance see 1. танцювати, 2. танок, 3. танець. dancer see 1. танцюрист, 2. танцівник, 3. балерина.

dancing see танці.

danger see 1. небезпека, 2. ЗАГРОЗА, 3. ризик. dangerous see небезпечний.

dangerously see небезпечно.

dare see 1. сміти, 2. наважуватися, 3. ПОСМІТИ. dark see темний.

darkness see темрява.

darling see 1. любий, 2. дорогий, 3. КОХАНИЙ. data see 1. дані, 2. факти, 3. інформація, 4. відомості.

date see 1. дата, 2. ДАТУВАТИ, 3. ПЕРІОД, 4. строк, 5. число.

daughter see 1. дочка, 2. ДОНЬКА.

dawn see 1. світанок, 2. ОСВІТЛЮВАТИСЯ.

day see 1. день, 2. пора, 3. ДОБА, 4. ЕПОХА, 5. ПЕРІОД, 6. строк.

daylight see 1. ПРОСВІТ, 2. світання, 3. гласність, світанок.

dead see 1. мертвий, 2. померлий, 3. НЕЖИВИЙ. deadly see 1. смертельний, 2. смертельно.

deaf see 1. глухий, 2. глухуватий.

deal see 1. частка, 2. розподіляти, 3.

ЗАВДАВАТИ, 4. роздавати.

dealer see 1. ділер, 2. біржовик, 3. торговець.

dealing see розподіл.

dean see ДЕКАН.

dear see 1. любий, 2. дорогий, 3. дорого.

death see 1. смерть, 2. ЗАГИБЕЛЬ.

debate see 1. дебати, 2. ОБДУМУВАТИ, 3. суперечка, 4. ОБГОВОРЮВАТИ, 5. ДИСКУТУВАТИ, 6. ДИСКУСІЯ, 7. ДЕБАТУВАТИ.

debris see 1. руїни, 2. ОСКОЛКИ, 3. уламки, 4.

debt see 1. борг, 2. ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАННЯ.

debtor see 1. боржник, 2. ДЕБІТОР.

debut see 1. ДЕБЮТ, 2. ДЕБЮТУВАТИ.

decade see 1. десятиріччя, 2. ДЕСЯТОК.

decay see 1. занепад, 2. розкладатися, 3.

руйнуватися, 4. розкладання, 5. ПСУВАТИСЯ, 6. занепадати, 7. гниття, 8. гнити.

deceased see ПОМИРАЄТЬСЯ.

decent see 1. скромний, 2. ДОБРЯЧИЙ, 3. НЕАБИЯКИЙ, 4. ПОРЯДНИЙ, 5. ПРИСТОЙНИЙ.

deception see 1. обман, 2. ШАХРАЙСТВО, 3. ОБЛУДА.

decide see 1. вирішувати, 2. вирішити.

decided see 1. рішучий, 2. вирішений, 3. ОСТАТОЧНИЙ, 4. ПЕВНИЙ.

decision see 1. вирішення, 2. рішення, 3. рішучість, 4. вирок.

decisive see 1. рішучий, 2. вирішальний, 3. ПЕРЕКОНЛИВИЙ.

deck see палуба.

declaration see 1. декларація, 2. заява, 3. ОГОЛОШЕННЯ.

declare see 1. висловлюватися, 2. ОГОЛОШУВАТИ, 3. ПРОГОЛОШУВАТИ, 4. визнавати (recognize), 5. ЗАЯВЛЯТИ, 6. ЗАЯВИТИ.

decline see 1. занепад, 2. нахилятися, 3. спад, 4. КІНЕЦЬ, 5. ЗНИЖЕННЯ, 6. ЗМЕНШУВАТИСЯ, 7. ЗМЕНШЕННЯ, 8. відмовлятися.

decoration see 1. прикраса, 2. ОЗДОБЛЕННЯ. decrease see 1. зменшуватися, 2. зниження, 3. ЗМЕНШЕННЯ, 4. ЗМЕНШУВАТИ.

decree see 1. декрет, 2. указ, 3. ухвалити, 4. НАКАЗУВАТИ, 5. ухвалювати.

dedicated see ПРИСВЯЧЕНИЙ.

dedication see 1. відданість, 2. ОСВЯЧЕННЯ, 3. ПРИСВЯТА, 4. ПРИСВЯЧЕННЯ.

deed see 1. подвиг, 2. справа, 3. ДІЛО, 4. ДІЙСНІСТЬ, 5. вчинок, 6. ДІЯННЯ.

deep see 1. глибокий, 2. глибина.

deeply see 1. глибоко, 2. серйозно.

deer see олень.

- **defeat** *see* **1**. поразка, **2**. РОЗГРОМ, **3**. РОЗБИВАТИ, **4**. відміняти, **5**. анулювати.
- defect see 1. дефект, 2. недолік, 3. ПОРОК, 4. вада, 5. ДЕЗЕРТИРУВАТИ, 6. НЕСТАЧА.
- **defective** *see* **1**. недосконалий, **2**. НЕДОСТАТНІЙ, **3**. НЕСПРАВНИЙ, **4**. ДЕФЕКТНИЙ.
- **defence** *see* **1**. оборона, **2**. захист (protection), **3**. виправдання.
- **defend** *see* 1. захищати, 2. обороняти, 3. охороняти, 4. відстоювати, 5. ЗАХИЩАТИСЯ, 6. ЗАХИСТИТИ.
- defendant see 1. відповідач, 2.
- ОБВИНУВАЧЕНИЙ, 3. ПІДСУДНИЙ.
- defender see 1. захисник, 2. борець.
- **defensive** *see* **1**. захисний, **2**. ОБОРОНА, **3**. ОБОРОННИЙ.
- **deficiency** *see* **1**. дефіцит, **2**. недолік, **3**. НЕДОСТАЧА (shortage).
- **deficit** *see* **1**. дефіцит, **2**. НЕДОЛІК, **3**. НЕСТАЧА. **define** *see* **1**. визначати, **2**. встановлювати, **3**.
- характеризувати. **definite** see 1. визначений, 2. ПЕВНИЙ, 3. точний (exact), 4. ясний.
- definitely see 1. визначено, 2. НАПЕВНО.
- **definition** *see* 1. визначення, 2. ясність, 3. чіткість, 4. ДЕФІНІЦІЯ, 5. ОЗНАЧЕННЯ.
- **definitive** *see* **1**. остаточний, **2**. безповоротний, **3**. відмітний.
- **degree** *see* **1**. ступінь, **2**. рівень, **3**. градус, **4**. ранг, **5**. ЗВАННЯ, **6**. МІРА.
- delay see 1. баритися, 2. відкладати, 3. затримка, 4. затримувати, 5. відкласти, 6. гаятися, 7. ЗВОЛІКАННЯ.
- **delegation** see 1. делегація, 2. ДЕЛЕГУВАННЯ, 3. ДЕПУТАЦІЯ.
- deliberate see 1. умисний, 2. навмисний, 3. вагатися, 4. міркувати, 5. неквапливий, 6. обачний, 7. обережний, 8. обмірковувати.
- deliberately see 1. свідомо, 2. ОБЕРЕЖНО, 3. НАВМИСНО, 4. ОБАЧНО, 5. ОБДУМАНО.
- delicate see 1. ніжний, 2. витончений, 3. вишуканий, 4. делікатний, 5. тендітний, 6. чемний, 7. м'який, 8. елегантний, 9. слабкий.
- delicious see 1. чарівний, 2. чудовий (wonderful), 3. прекрасний.
- delight see 1. захоплення, 2. захоплювати, 3. задоволення, 4. насолода, 5. тішити, 6. усолоджувати, 7. захват.
- delightful see чудовий (wonderful).
- deliver see 1. доставляти, 2. передавати, 3. ДОСТАВИТИ, 4. вручати, 5. випускати, 6. розносити.
- **delivery** *see* **1**. ВИДАЧА, **2**. ВРУЧЕННЯ, **3**. ДОСТАВКА, **4**. РОЗНЕСЕННЯ.
- demand see 1. вимагати, 2. вимога.
- dementia see 1. недоумство, 2. ЗАХОПЛЕННЯ.

- demise see ОРЕНДА.
- **democracy** *see* **1**. демократія, **2**. ДЕМОКРАТИЗМ, **3**. НАРОДОВЛАДДЯ.
- democrat see демократ.
- democratic see демократичний.
- demolition see 1. руйнування, 2. розбирання, 3. ломка, 4. ламання, 5. ЗНИЩЕННЯ, 6. скасування.
- **demonstrate** *see* **1**. демонструвати, **2**. доводити, **3**. виявляти, **4**. ілюструвати, **5**. ПОКАЗУВАТИ, **6**. ПРОЯВЛЯТИ.
- **demonstration** see 1. демонстрація, 2. ПОКАЗ, 3. МАНІФЕСТАЦІЯ, 4. вияв, 5. ілюстрація.
- denial see 1. заперечення, 2. відмова (refusal), 3. відхилення, 4. ЗРЕЧЕННЯ, 5. спростування.
- dense see 1. густий, 2. ДУРНИЙ, 3. щільний, 4. КОМПАКТНИЙ, 5. тупий.
- density see 1. щільність, 2. ГУСТИНА, 3. густота, 4. КОМПАКТНІСТЬ, 5. КОНЦЕНТРАЦІЯ. dental see зубний.
- dentist see дантист.
- deny see 1. заперечувати, 2. відмовляти, 3. зрікатися, 4. спростовувати, 5. відкидати, 6. ЗАПЕРЕЧИТИ.
- **department** *see* 1. відділення, 2. цех, 3. факультет, 4. відомство, 5. відділ, 6. управління.
- departmental see відомчий.
- **departure** *see* **1**. від'їзд, **2**. ЗБОЧЕННЯ, **3**. виїзд, **4**. відхилення, **5**. відхід.
- **depend** *see* **1**. залежати, **2**. розраховувати, **3**. ПОКЛАДАТИСЯ.
- dependence see 1. залежність, 2. ДОВІР'Я.
- dependency see залежність.
- **dependent** see 1. ЗАЛЕЖНИЙ, 2. ПІДЛЕГЛИЙ, 3. утриманець.
- deployment see розгортання.
- **deposit** *see* **1**. внесок, **2**. депозит, **3**. депонувати, **4**. метати, **5**. ЗАСТАВА, **6**. ЗАВДАТОК, **7**. відкладати, **8**. вклад.
- **depot** *see* **1**. склад, **2**. КОМОРА, **3**. ДЕПО, **4**. сховище.
- **depressed** *see* **1**. ОСЛАБЛЕНИЙ, **2**. ПРИГНОБЛЕНИЙ.
- depressing see гнітючий.
- **depression** *see* **1**. депресія, **2**. КРИЗА, **3**. ЗАНЕПАД, **4**. ЗАСТІЙ, **5**. ЗМЕНШЕННЯ.
- **deprivation** *see* **1**. позбавлення, **2**. відібрання, **3**. втрата (loss).
- depth see 1. глибина, 2. безодня, 3. глибочінь.
- **deputy** *see* **1**. заступник, **2**. депутат, **3**. представник, **4**. ДЕЛЕГАТ.
- derelict see бездоглядний.
- derive see 1. ОДЕРЖУВАТИ, 2. походити.
- **descent** *see* **1**. спуск, **2**. ЗНИЖЕННЯ, **3**. ПОНИЖЕННЯ, **4**. схил.

482 describe see 1. описувати, 2. ЗМАЛЬОВУВАТИ, 3. ЗОБРАЖАТИ, 4. ОПИСАТИ. description see 1. опис, 2. КРЕСЛЕННЯ, 3. вид, 4. ЗОБРАЖЕННЯ. descriptive see наочний. desert see 1. пустеля, 2. пустельний, 3. голий, 4. ПУСТИНЯ. 5. ПУСТИННИЙ. 6. дезертирувати, 7. КИДАТИ, 8. ЗАЛИШАТИ, 9. ЗАСЛУГА, 10. безлюдний, 11. ПОКИДАТИ. deserve see заслуговувати. design see 1. HAMIP (intent, intention), 2. розробляти, 3. ПЛАН, 4. МЕТА, 5. ЗАДУМ, 6. ПРОЕКТ. designer see 1. конструктор, 2. ДИЗАЙНЕР, 3. КРЕСЛЯР, 4. МОДЕЛЬЄР, 5. ПРОЕКТУВАЛЬНИК. desirable see 1. бажаний, 2. ЖАДАНИЙ. desire see 1. бажання, 2. бажати, 3. пристрасть, 4. ЖАДАТИ, 5. прагнення, 6. хотіти. desk see 1. парта, 2. КОНТОРКА, 3. бювар. despair see 1. відчай, 2. розпач. desperate see 1. безнадійний, 2. відчайдушний, 3. ЖАХЛИВИЙ. desperation see розпач. despite see НЕЗВАЖАЮЧИ. destination see ПРИЗНАЧЕННЯ. destiny see 1. доля. 2. НЕМИНУЧІСТЬ. destroy see 1. знищувати, 2. руйнувати, 3. ЗНИЩИТИ, 4. ЗРУЙНУВАТИ, 5. НИЩИТИ. destruction see 1. ЗРУЙНУВАННЯ, 2. руйнація, 3. загибель, 4. руйнування. destructive see руйнівний. detail see 1. деталь, 2. подробиця. detailed see 1. докладний, 2. ДЕТАЛЬНИЙ. detect see 1. виявляти, 2. ПОМІЧАТИ, 3. розслідувати, 4. відкривати. detection see виявлення. detective see 1. детектив, 2. ДЕТЕКТИВНИЙ. detector see детектор. detention see затримання. deterioration see 1. погіршення, 2. ПСУВАННЯ. determination see 1. визначення, 2. рішучість. determine see 1. визначати, 2. ОБУМОВЛЮВАТИ. determined see 1. визначений, 2. рішучий. deterrent see лякаючий.

devaluation see девальвація.

develop see 1. розвивати, 2.

developer see розробник.

deviation see вілхилення.

ЕВОЛЮЦІЯ.

УДОСКОНАЛЮВАТИ, 3. РОЗРОБЛЯТИ.

development see 1. розвиток, 2. розробка, 3.

devil see 1. диявол, 2. чорт, 3. біс, 4. сатана. devoted see 1. присвячений, 2. відданий, 3. ніжний. devotion see 1. ПРИСВЯТА, 2. ПОБОЖНІСТЬ, 3. відданість. diabetes see діабет. diagnosis see діагноз. diagnostic see діагностичний. diagram see 1. діаграма, 2. схема. dialogue see 1. розмова, 2. діалог. diameter see діаметр. diamond see 1. діамант, 2. АЛМАЗНИЙ, 3. АЛМАЗ. diary see щоденник. dictionary see 1. словник, 2. ДОВІДНИК. die see 1. помирати, 2. умирати, 3. умерти, 4. ЗНИКАТИ, 5. штамп, 6. ПОМЕРТИ. diet see 1. КОНГРЕС, 2. ПАРЛАМЕНТ, 3. харчування. differ see 1. відрізнятися, 2. РІЗНИТИСЯ. difference see різниця. different see 1. різний, 2. відмінний, 3. інший, 4. НЕСХОЖИЙ. differential see 1. відмітний. 2. ДИФЕРЕНЦІАЛЬНИЙ. differentiation see 1. ДИФЕРЕНЦІЮВАННЯ, 2. розмежування, 3. спеціалізація. differently see по-різному. difficult see 1. важкий, 2. тяжкий, 3. трудний, 4. скрутний. difficulty see 1. трудність, 2. ПЕРЕШКОДА, 3. ПЕРЕШКОДИ, 4. скрута, 5. труднощі. dig see 1. копати, 2. рити, 3. розкопувати, 4. викопувати, 5. стусан. digging see 1. КОПАННЯ, 2. риття, 3. розкопки. digital see 1. цифровий, 2. ПЕРСТ. dignity see гідність. dilemma see дилема. dim see 1. тьмяний, 2. НЕВИРАЗНИЙ. dimension see 1. величина, 2. вимір, 3. розмір. dinner see 1. обід, 2. ОБІДАТИ. dioxide see двоокис. diplomacy see дипломатія. diplomatic see дипломатичний. direct see 1. прямий, 2. спрямовувати, 3. керувати, 4. ПРАВИТИ, 5. НАПРАВЛЯТИ, 6. відразу, 7. безпосередній, 8. безпосередньо. direction see 1. керівництво, 2. напрям, 3. НАПРЯМОК, 4. спрямування, 5. галузь. directions see ДИРЕКТИВИ. directive see 1. ДИРЕКТИВ, 2. ДИРЕКТИВА, 3. директивний. directly see 1. безпосередньо, 2. прямо.

device see 1. ПРИСТРІЙ, 2. ПРОЕКТ, 3.

ПРИЛАД, 4. ПРИЙОМ, 5. ПЛАН, 6. витівка,

director see 1. директор, 2. диригент, 3. режисер, 4. управитель, 5. керівник, 6. начальник. directory see довідник. dirt see 1. бруд, 2. сміття, 3. багно, 4. грунт. dirty see 1. брудний, 2. бруднити. disability see неспроможність. disabled see ПОКАЛІЧЕНИЙ. disadvantage see 1. невигода, 2. ЗАВАДА, 3. НЕДОЛІК, 4. НЕЗРУЧНІСТЬ, 5. шкода. disagreement see незгода. disappear see 1. зникати, 2. пропадати, 3. ЗНИКНУТИ. disappearance see 1. зникнення, 2. ПРОПАЖА. disappointed see розчарований. disappointment see 1. розчарування, 2. ПРИКРІСТЬ. disaster see лихо. disastrous see 1. ЗГУБНИЙ, 2. ЗЛОВІСНИЙ. disc see диск. discharge see 1. розвантажувати, 2. ВИВАНТАЖУВАТИ, 3. РОЗВАНТАЖЕННЯ, 4. РОЗВАНТАЖУВАННЯ. disciplinary see дисциплінарний. discipline see дисципліна. disclose see розкривати. disclosure see 1. відкриття, 2. розкриття. discomfort see 1. НЕЗРУЧНІСТЬ, 2. ДИСКОМФОРТ. discount see 1. знижка. 2. знижувати. 3. ДИСКОНТ, 4. ДИСКОНТУВАТИ. discourse see 1. лекція, 2. розмова. discover see 1. відкривати, 2. ДОВІДУВАТИСЯ, виявляти. discovery see 1. відкриття, 2. виявлення. discreet see 1. скромний, 2. ОБЕРЕЖНИЙ, 3. стриманий. discretion see 1. ПЕРЕРИВЧАСТІСТЬ, 2. ОБАЧНІСТЬ, 3. ОБЕРЕЖНІСТЬ. discrimination see дискримінація. discuss see 1. обговорювати, 2. дискутувати, 3. смакувати. discussion see 1. дискусія, 2. обговорення, 3. ПЕРЕГОВОРИ. disease see 1. захворювання, 2. хвороба. disgust see 1. огида, 2. відраза. disgusting see огидний. dish see 1. страва, 2. блюдо, 3. тарілка.

disk see лиск.

розходитися.

dismiss see 1. звільняти, 2. відпускати, 3.

disorder see 1. безладдя, 2. розстроювати.

відображення, 4. ДИСПЛЕЙ, 5. ПОКАЗ.

display see 1. показувати, 2. виявляти, 3.

dismissal see 1. звільнення, 2. розпуск.

disposal see 1. усунення, 2. управління, 3. РОЗТАШУВАННЯ, 4. передача. dispose see 1. розташовувати, 2. схиляти. disposition see 1. РОЗМІЩЕННЯ, 2. РОЗТАШУВАННЯ, 3. характер. dispute see 1. сперечатися, 2. суперечка, 3. ОБГОВОРЮВАТИ, 4. ДИСПУТ, 5. спір. disruption see 1. відпадання, 2. КРАХ, 3. ПІДРИВ. dissatisfaction see НЕЗАДОВОЛЕННЯ. dissolution see 1. розчинення, 2. танення, 3. розкладання. distance see 1. відстань, 2. ДИСТАНЦІЯ. distant see 1. віддалений, 2. далекий, 3. ДАЛЬНІЙ. distinct see 1. ясний, 2. відмінний, 3. окремий, 4. особливий. distinction see 1. ЗНАТНІСТЬ, 2. розрізнення, 3. відмінність. distinctive see характерний. distinctly see виразно. distinguish see 1. відрізняти, 2. характеризувати, 3. розрізняти, 4. розпізнати, 5. відрізнити, 6. розрізнити. distinguished see 1. вишуканий, 2. видатний. distortion see 1. ПЕРЕКРУЧЕННЯ, 2. спотворення. distress see 1. горе, 2. страждання. distribution see 1. розподіл, 2. ПОШИРЕННЯ. district see 1. дільниця, 2. ОКРУГ, 3. ОКРУГА, 4. ОКРУГИ, 5. район. disturb see 1. непокоїти, 2. турбувати, 3. хвилювати, 4. ПОРУШУВАТИ. disturbance see 1. хвилювання, 2. пошкодження, 3. неспокій. ditch see 1. piB, 2. KAHABA. diverse see 1. різний, 2. різноманітний, 3. інший. diversion see 1. відхилення, 2. розвага. diversity see 1. відмінність, 2. НЕСХОЖІСТЬ, 3. різновидність. divide see 1. ділити, 2. поділяти, 3. відділяти, 4. вододіл. divided see 1. розділений, 2. розподілений. dividend see ДИВІДЕНД. divine see 1. божественний, 2. богослов, 3. віщувати. division see 1. поділ, 2. розподіл, 3. голосування, дивізія, 5. ділення. divorce see 1. розлучатися, 2. розлучення, 3. do see 1. робити (make), 2. виконувати, 3. влаштовувати, 4. готувати, 5. ЗАЙМАТИСЯ, 6. ЗРОБИТИ, 7. чинити. dock see 1. док, 2. тупик. doctor see 1. лікар, 2. ДОКТОР, 3.

фальсифікувати.

doctrine see 1. доктрина, 2. ДОГМА. document see документ. documentation see документація. dog see 1. собака, 2. пес. doll see 1. лялька, 2. наряджати. dollar see долар. dolly see лялечка. dolphin see дельфін. domain see 1. володіння, 2. галузь, 3. МАЄТОК. dome see 1. купол, 2. баня. domestic see 1. домашній, 2. свійський, 3. внутрішній. dominance see 1. вплив, 2. ПАНУВАННЯ. dominant see 1. ДОМІНУЮЧИЙ, 2. ПАНІВНИЙ. dominate see 1. домінувати, 2. СТРИМУВАТИ, 3. ПАНУВАТИ, 4. ПЕРЕВАЖАТИ. domination see 1. ПЕРЕВАГА, 2. влада (authority), **3**. ПАНУВАННЯ. don see ДОН. donation see 1. дар, 2. ДАРУНОК. donor see 1. донор, 2. ЖЕРТВОДАВЕЦЬ. door see двері. doorway see шлях (way). dose see 1. дозувати, 2. доза, 3. частка. dot see 1. крапка, 2. Крихітка, 3. точка. double see 1. подвійний, 2. подвоювати, 3. ДВІЙНИК. doubt see 1. cymnib, 2. cymnibatucs. doubtful see 1. підозрілий, 2. сумнівний, 3. НЕЯСНИЙ. doubtless see 1. безперечно, 2. безсумнівний, 3. безсумнівно. down see 1. униз, 2. унизу, 3. КІНЧАТИ, 4. ДОНИЗУ, 5. спуск, 6. ОПУСКАТИ. downstairs see 1. внизу, 2. униз. dozen see дюжина. draft see 1. проект, 2. чек. drag see 1. відставати, 2. гальмо. dragon see 1. дракон, 2. дуенья. drain see 1. осущувати. 2. витрата. 3. ДРЕНАЖ. 4. фільтрувати. drainage see 1. дренаж, 2. стік, 3. ОСУШУВАННЯ, 4. КАНАЛІЗАЦІЯ. drama see драма. dramatic see 1. драматичний, 2. ЕФЕКТНИЙ, 3. театральний, 4. хвилюючий. dramatically see драматично. drastic see 1. сильнодіючий, 2. РІШУЧИЙ. draw see 1. малювати, 2. тягти, 3. тягнути, 4. тяга,

5. НАМАЛЮВАТИ, 6. НАТЯГАТИ.

drawn see 1. витягнутий, 2. відведений.

drawing see 1. рисунок, 2. креслення, 3. малюнок,

drawer see шухляда.

drawers see КАЛЬСОНИ.

4. ПРОТЯГУВАННЯ.

ПЛАТТЯ, 5. ОДЯГ. dressing see 1. вдягання, 2. ПРИПРАВА. drift see 1. дрейф, 2. відносити. drill see 1. ДРИЛЬ, 2. тренувати, 3. ВПРАВА, 4. СВЕРДЕЛ, 5. СВЕРДЛО. drink see 1. напій, 2. пити. drinking see ПИТТЯ. drive see 1. їздити, 2. водити, 3. ДИСКОВОД, 4. driver see 1. шофер, 2. МЕХАНІК-ВОДІЙ, 3. водій. 4. МАШИНІСТ. drop see 1. крапля, 2. КРАПАТИ, 3. падати (fall), 4. ПАДІННЯ, 5. стихати. dropping see падіння. drought see 1. ЗАСУХА, 2. ПОСУХА. drove see 1. гурт, 2. НАТОВП, 3. стадо. drug see 1. МЕДИКАМЕНТ, 2. НАРКОТИК, 3. лісовоз, 4. ліки. drum see барабан. drunk see п'яний. drunken see п'яний. dry see 1. сушити, 2. сохнути, 3. сухий, 4. СУША, 5. СУШИТИСЯ, 6. ПОСУШЛИВИЙ, 7. витирати, 8. СУХІСТЬ. dual see 1. подвійний, 2. ДВОЇСТИЙ. dubious see 1. сумнівний, 2. ПІДОЗРІЛИЙ. duchy see герцогство. duck see 1. качка, 2. ПАРУСИНА, 3. ПІРНАННЯ, 4. ЗАНУРЮВАТИ, 5. ПІРНАТИ. due see 1. належний, 2. НАЛЕЖНЕ, 3. ОЧІКУВАНИЙ. duke see герцог. dull see 1. тупий, 2. тьмяний, 3. НУДНИЙ, 4. ПОХМУРИЙ. duly see 1. цілком, 2. ПРАВИЛЬНО, 3. НАЛЕЖНО. dumb see 1. німий, 2. беззвучний, 3. мовчазний, 4. безсловесний. duodenal see дуоденальний. duration see тривалість. during see протягом. dusk see сутінки. dust see 1. пил, 2. порох, 3. запилити. dusty see 1. ПИЛЬНИЙ, 2. ПОДРІБНЕНИЙ, 3. duty see 1. обов'язок, 2. мито (customs), 3. чергування, 4. ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАННЯ, 5. служба, 6. податок. dying see 1. умираючий, 2. ЗГАСАННЯ, 3. ПЕРЕДСМЕРТНИЙ, 4. умирання. dynamic see 1. динамічний, 2. ДИНАМІКА. dynamics see динаміка.

dreadful see жахливий.

dream see 1. мрія, 2. мріяти, 3. сон, 4. снитися.

dress see 1. одягати, 2. одягатися, 3. ОДЯГНУТИ,

effort see 1. зусилля, 2. НАПРУЖЕННЯ.

### еgg see яйце. eight see вісім. eighteen see вісімнадцять. $\mathbf{F}$ eighteenth see вісімнадцятий. eighth see восьмий. each see 1. кожний, 2. КОЖЕН. eighty see вісімдесят. eager see 1. гострий, 2. ЕНЕРГІЙНИЙ, 3. either see 1. також, 2. або (or), 3. будь-який, 4. НЕТЕРПЛЯЧИЙ. КОЖНИЙ, 5. ОБИДВА. **eagle** see 1. орел, 2. беркут. elbow see лікоть. ear see 1. вухо, 2. слух, 3. ДУЖКА, 4. вушко. elder see 1. старший, 2. старець, 3. старійшина. earl see граф. elderly see літній. early see 1. ранній, 2. рано. eldest see найстарший. earn see 1. заробляти, 2. ЗАСЛУГОВУВАТИ. election see вибори. earnings see 1. ЗАРОБІТОК, 2. НАДХОДЖЕННЯ, electoral see виборчий. 3. ЗАРОБІТКИ, 4. ПРИБУТОК. electorate see ЕЛЕКТОРАТ. earth see 1. земля, 2. грунт, 3. суша. electric see електричний. ease see 1. легкість, 2. НЕВИМУШЕНІСТЬ, 3. electrical see електричний. спокій. electricity see електрика. easily see легко. electron see електрон. east see 1. схід, 2. Східний. electronic see електронний. eastern see східний. electronics see електроніка. easy see 1. легкий, 2. ЗРУЧНИЙ, 3. elegant see елегантний. НЕВИМУШЕНИЙ, 4. ПРОСТИЙ. element see 1. елемент, 2. стихія. eat see 1. їсти, 2. роз'їдати. elementary see елементарний. eccentric see 1. ексцентричний, 2. дивак. elephant see слон. echo see 1. луна, 2. НАСЛІДУВАТИ. eleven see одинадцять. ecology see екологія. **eligible** *see* **1**. бажаний, **2**. ПІДХОЖИЙ. economic see 1. економічний, 2. господарський, 3. eliminate see 1. виключати, 2. ліквідувати, 3. ПРАКТИЧНИЙ. усувати, 4. ЗНИЩУВАТИ, 5. ігнорувати. economically see економно. elimination see 1. усунення, 2. ліквідація. economics see економіка. elite see ЕЛІТА. economist see економіст. else see 1. ше. 2. інший. 3. інакше. economy see 1. економіка, 2. господарство, 3. elusive see невловимий. ЕКОНОМІЧНІСТЬ, 4. ОЩАДЛИВІСТЬ, 5. embarrassing see скрутний. структура. embarrassment see 1. утруднення, 2. edge see 1. край, 2. вістря, 3. лезо. ЗАПЛУТАНІСТЬ, 3. ЗБЕНТЕЖЕННЯ, 4. edition see 1. видання, 2. тираж, 3. випуск, 4. труднощі. копія. embassy see 1. посольство, 2. АМБАСАДА. editor see 1. редактор, 2. видавець. emerge see 1. з'являтися, 2. З'ЯСОВУВАТИСЯ, 3. educated see 1. вихований. 2. освічений. спливати. education see 1. освіта, 2. виховання, 3. emergence see 1. вихід, 2. поява. НАВЧАННЯ, 4. ОСВІЧЕНІСТЬ, 5. emergency see 1. допоміжний, 2. запасний, 3. ДРЕСИРУВАННЯ. аварія, 4. аварійний, 5. КРАЙНІСТЬ. educational see 1. освітній, 2. виховний, 3. emission see 1. емісія. 2. виділення. НАВЧАЛЬНИЙ, 4. ПЕДАГОГІЧНИЙ. emotion see емоція. effect see 1. наслідок (outcome), 2. вплив, 3. ефект, emotional see 1. ЕМОЦІЙНИЙ, 2. хвилюючий. **4**. чинність, **5**. МЕТА, **6**. ДІЯ, **7**. результат. emperor see імператор. effective see ефективний. emphasis see 1. наголос, 2. виразність, 3. effectiveness see 1. ефективність, 2. ДІЄВІСТЬ. efficacy see 1. ефективність, 2. ДІЄВІСТЬ. АКЦЕНТ (accent). efficiency see 1. РЕНТАБЕЛЬНІСТЬ, 2. empire see імперія. employ see 1. використовувати, 2. наймати, 3. продуктивність, 3. ЕФЕКТИВНІСТЬ, 4. ДІЄВІСТЬ, 5. працездатність. вживати, 4. ЗАНЯТТЯ, 5. застосовувати, 6.

efficient see 1. ефективний, 2. ДІЄВИЙ, 3.

продуктивний.

служба.

employee see 1. службовець, 2. робітник.

employer see 1. наймач, 2. роботодавець. employment see 1. використання, 2. ЗАЙНЯТІСТЬ, 3. ЗАЙНЯТТЯ, 4. ПРАЦЯ, 5. служба. empty see 1. порожній, 2. спорожняти, 3. пустий, 4. випорожняти. enclosure see 1. ЗАМИКАННЯ, 2. ОГОРОЖА, 3. ДОДАТОК. encounter see 1. сутичка, 2. ЗУСТРІТИ, 3. ЗУСТРІЧ. encourage see 1. заохочувати, 2. ПІДБАДЬОРЮВАТИ, З. ПІДБУРЮВАТИ, 4. ЗАОХОТИТИ, 5. ПІДТРИМУВАТИ. encouragement see 1. ЗАОХОЧЕННЯ, 2. підбадьорювання. end see 1. кінець, 2. закінчуватися, 3. КІНЧАТИ. ending see закінчення. endless see 1. нескінченний, 2. незліченний, 3. рулонний. endorsement see 1. підтвердження, 2. індосамент. enemy see 1. ворог, 2. супротивник. energetic see 1. енергійний, 2. ЕНЕРГЕТИЧНИЙ. energy see 1. енергія, 2. сила, 3. ПОТУЖНІСТЬ. enforce see 1. HAB'ЯЗУВАТИ, 2. ПРИМУШУВАТИ. enforcement see 1. силування, 2. тиск. engage see 1. ЗАМОВЛЯТИ, 2. НАЙМАТИ, 3. ОБРУЧИТИСЯ. engaged see 1. ЗАЙНЯТИЙ, 2. ЗАЦІКАВЛЕНИЙ. engagement see 1. заняття, 2. ЗАРУЧИНИ, 3. ДІЛО, 4. ЗАПРОШЕННЯ. engine see 1. двигун, 2. машина, 3. ЗАСІБ, 4. знаряддя, 5. МОТОР, 6. ПАРОВОЗ. engineer see інженер. engineering see 1. техніка. 2. МАШИНОБУДУВАННЯ, 3. ПРИКЛАДНИЙ. enhance see 1. ЗБІЛЬШУВАТИ, 2. ПІЛВИШУВАТИ. enjov see 1. насолоджуватися, 2. КОРИСТУВАТИСЯ. enjoyable see втішний. **enjoyment** see 1. задоволення, 2. володіння. enormous see 1. величезний, 2. ЖАХЛИВИЙ. enough see 1. досить, 2. достатній, 3. достатньо, 4. доволі. enquiry see ЗАПИТ. ensure see 1. ручатися, 2. страхувати, 3. ЗАБЕЗПЕЧУВАТИ, 4. гарантувати. enter see 1. вступати, 2. входити, 3. вступити, 4. enterprise see 1. підприємство, 2. діловитість, 3. ПІДПРИЄМЛИВІСТЬ, 4. ПІДПРИЄМНИЦТВО. entertainment see 1. розвага, 2. ПРИЙОМ.

enthusiasm see ентузіазм.

enthusiastic see захоплений.

entire see 1. повний, 2. весь, 3. цілий. entirely see 1. цілком, 2. повністю. entity see суть. entrance see 1. вхід (entry), 2. в'їзд, 3. ДОСТУП (access). entry see 1. вхід, 2. вступ, 3. ворота, 4. ЗАНЕСЕННЯ. envelope see 1. конверт, 2. ОБКЛАДИНКА, 3. ОБОЛОНКА. environment see 1. середовище, 2. ОТОЧЕННЯ. **enzyme** *see* ензим. episode see eпiзол. equal see 1. дорівнювати, 2. однаковий, 3. рівний. equality see 1. рівність, 2. рівноправність. equally see 1. однаково, 2. ПОРІВНУ. equation see рівняння. equilibrium see рівновага. equipment see 1. обладнання, 2. устаткування. equitable see справедливий. **equity** see 1. справедливість, 2. безсторонність. equivalent see 1. рівноцінний, 2. еквівалент, 3. ЕКВІВАЛЕНТНИЙ. era see 1. epa, 2. доба. erosion see epoзія. error see помилка (mistake). escape see 1. втеча, 2. тікати, 3. утекти, 4. утікати. especially see особливо. essay see 1. ЕССЕ, 2. НАМАГАТИСЯ, 3. НАРИС. essence see 1. суть, 2. ЕСЕНЦІЯ, 3. існування, 4. сутність. essential see 1. істотний, 2. суттєвий. establish see 1. ЗАСНОВУВАТИ, 2. встановлювати, 3. встановити, 4. влаштовувати. established see установлений. establishment see 1. заснування, 2. УСТАНОВА. estate see 1. маєток, 2. МАЙНО. estimate see 1. оцінка, 2. оцінювати, 3. кошторис. eternal see 1. вічний, 2. незмінний, 3. ДОВІЧНИЙ, 4. НЕПОРУШНИЙ, 5. сталий. ethical see етичний. ethics see 1. ЕТИКА, 2. ЕТИКИ. ethnic see етнічний. evaluate see 1. оцінювати, 2. ОЦІНИТИ. evaluation see 1. оцінка, 2. ОБЧИСЛЕННЯ, 3. ОЦІНЮВАННЯ. eve see переддень. even see 1. навіть, 2. рівний, 3. однаковий, 4. гладкий, 5. вирівнювати, 6. рівно, 7. рівномірний, 8. рівняти, 9. справедливий, 10. урівноважений. evening see 1. вечір, 2. вечірка. evenly see порівну. event see 1. подія, 2. випадок (occasion), 3. результат.

вигнання, 4. виганяти, 5. ЗАСЛАННЯ.

```
eventual see 1. випадковий, 2. КІНЦЕВИЙ, 3.
                                                     exile see 1. EMIГРАНТ, 2. ЗАСИЛАТИ, 3.
  можливий. 4. Остаточний.
eventually see зрештою.
ever see 1. завжди, 2. коли-небудь, 3. КОЛИСЬ.
everyday see 1. повсякденний, 2. звичайний, 3.
  щоденний.
everywhere see 1. скрізь, 2. усюди, 3. всюди.
evidence see 1. ОЧЕВИДНІСТЬ, 2. свідчення, 3.
  ЛОКАЗ.
evident see 1. очевидний, 2. явний.
evidently see очевидно.
evil see 1. злий, 2. зло, 3. біда, 4. шкідливий.
evolution see 1. еволюція, 2. розвиток, 3.
  розгортання.
evolutionary see еволюційний.
exact see точний.
exactly see 1. точно, 2. саме, 3. якраз.
exam see 1. іспит, 2. екзамен.
examination see 1. ОБСТЕЖЕННЯ, 2. ОГЛЯД, 3.
   ЕКЗАМЕН.
examine see 1. досліджувати, 2. екзаменувати, 3.
  ОГЛЯДАТИ, 4. ОГЛЯНУТИ, 5. розглядати.
example see 1. зразок, 2. приклад.
exceed see 1. перевищувати, 2. ПЕРЕВАЖАТИ.
excellence see 1. досконалість, 2. ПЕРЕВАГА.
excellent see ЧУДОВИЙ (wonderful).
except see 1. крім, 2. ОКРІМ.
exception see 1. виняток, 2. ЗАПЕРЕЧЕННЯ.
exceptional see 1. винятковий, 2. надзвичайний.
excess see 1. надлишок, 2. ПЕРЕВИЩЕННЯ, 3.
  EKCHEC.
excessive see 1. надмірний, 2. ЗАЙВИЙ.
exchange see 1. обмін, 2. обмінювати, 3. біржа, 4.
  обмінюватися.
exchequer see 1. KAЗНАЧЕЙСТВО, 2. KAЗНА.
excited see 1. збуджений, 2. схвильований.
excitement see збудження.
exciting see ЗБУДЖЕННЯ.
exclude see 1. виключати. 2. виключити.
exclusion see 1. виняток, 2. виключення.
exclusive see 1. винятковий, 2. першокласний, 3.
  недоступний, 4. ВИКЛЮЧНИЙ.
exclusively see виключно.
excuse see 1. прошати. 2. вибачати. 3. вибачення.
  4. вибачити, 5. ПРОБАЧЕННЯ, 6.
  ПРОБАЧИТИ.
execution see 1. виконання, 2. страта.
executive see виконавчий.
exemption see 1. звільнення, 2. ПІЛЬГА.
exercise see 1. вправа, 2. вправляти, 3.
  ЗДІЙСНЮВАТИ.
exhausted see 1. виснажений, 2. ЗМОРЕНИЙ, 3.
```

змучений.

exhaustion see 1. виснаження, 2. витягування.

exhibition see 1. виставка, 2. ПОКАЗ, 3. ПРОЯВ.

```
exist see 1. існувати, 2. бути, 3. жити (live).
existence see 1. існування, 2. ЖИТТЯ (life).
exit see 1. вихід, 2. виходити.
exotic see екзотичний.
expand see 1. поширюватися, 2. розширювати, 3.
   розширюватися, 4. ПОШИРЮВАТИ.
expansion see 1. розширення, 2. ЕКСПАНСІЯ, 3.
   ПРОСТІР.
expect see 1. очікувати, 2. чекати (wait), 3.
   сподіватися, 4. НАДІЯТИСЯ, 5. ЖДАТИ, 6.
   розраховувати.
expectancy see 1. очікування, 2. імовірність, 3.
   НАДІЯ (hope).
expectation see 1. чекання, 2. НАДІЯ (hope), 3.
   очікування.
expedition see 1. експедиція, 2. відправка.
expenditure see 1. витрата, 2. витрачання.
expense see 1. витрата, 2. видаток, 3. витрати.
expensive see 1. ДОРОГИЙ, 2. КОШТОВНИЙ.
experience see 1. досвід, 2. зазнавати, 3.
   ЗАЗНАТИ.
experienced see 1. ЗАЗНАЄТЬСЯ, 2.
   досвідчений.
experiment see 1. дослід, 2. експеримент, 3.
   ЕКСПЕРИМЕНТУВАТИ.
experimental see 1. експериментальний, 2.
   ПІДДОСЛІДНИЙ.
expert see 1. фахівець, 2. ДОСВІДЧЕНИЙ, 3.
   знавець, 4. ЕКСПЕРТ.
expertise see експертиза.
explain see 1. пояснювати, 2. тлумачити, 3.
   пояснити.
explanation see 1. пояснення, 2. тлумачення, 3.
   виправдання.
explanatory see пояснювальний.
explicit see 1. точний (exact), 2. ясний, 3.
   ДОКЛАДНИЙ.
explicitly see ясно.
exploit see 1. подвиг, 2. експлуатувати.
exploitation see 1. експлуатація, 2. використання.
exploration see дослідження.
explore see 1. досліджувати, 2. ЗОНДУВАТИ, 3.
   розвідувати.
explosion see 1. вибух, 2. спалах.
explosive see вибуховий.
export see 1. експортувати, 2. експорт, 3.
   вивезення, 4. вивозити.
exposure see 1. виставляння, 2. ЕКСПОЗИЦІЯ.
express see 1. висловлювати, 2. виражати, 3.
   виразити. 4. висловити. 5. ЕКСПРЕС.
expression see 1. вислів, 2. вираз, 3. виразність, 4.
   вираження.
expressive see виразний.
expressly see 1. спеціально, 2. чітко.
```

exquisite see винятковий.

**extend** *see* **1**. простягатися, **2**. поширювати, **3**. розширяти, **4**. ПРОСТЯГАТИ, **5**.

ПОДОВЖИТИ, 6. витягати, 7. розширювати.

extended see тривалий.

**extension** *see* **1**. витягування, **2**. ПРОДОВЖЕННЯ, **3**. розповсюдження, **4**. РОЗШИРЕННЯ.

extensive see 1. просторий (spacious), 2. широкий, 3. ОБШИРНИЙ.

extensively see широко.

extent see MIPA.

external see 1. зовнішній, 2. іноземний.

**extinction** *see* **1**. вимирання, **2**. гасіння, **3**. ПРИПИНЕННЯ.

extra see 1. особливий, 2. ДОДАТКОВИЙ.

**extract** *see* **1**. екстракт, **2**. випис, **3**. витяг, **4**. витягувати, **5**. уривок, **6**. вибирати.

extraction see витяг.

extraordinary see 1. надзвичайний, 2. незвичайний, 3. ЕКСТРАОРДИНАРНИЙ, 4. ДИВОВИЖНИЙ.

**extreme** *see* **1**. крайній, **2**. надзвичайний, **3**. крайність, **4**. ЕКСТРЕМАЛЬНИЙ.

extremely see надзвичайно.

eye see 1. око, 2. вічко.

## F

fabric see 1. тканина, 2. виріб, 3. структура. fabulous see 1. легендарний, 2. міфічний, 3. НЕЙМОВІРНИЙ, 4. приголомшливий.

face see 1. обличчя, 2. лице.

facial see лицьовий.

facilitate see 1. полегшувати. 2. сприяти.

facilities see МОЖЛИВОСТІ.

facility see легкість.

facing see облицювання.

fact see 1. факт, 2. істина.

faction see 1. фракція, 2. фракційність.

**factor** *see* **1**. фактор, **2**. КОМІСІОНЕР, **3**. АГЕНТ, **4**. чинник.

**factory** *see* **1**. фабрика, **2**. ЗАВОД, **3**. факторія. **factual** *see* фактичний.

**faculty** *see* **1**. факультет, **2**. влада (authority), **3**. ЗДІБНІСТЬ.

fail see 1. слабнути, 2. провалитися.

failing see HEДОСТАЧА (shortage).

failure see 1. провал, 2. банкрутство, 3.

НЕВДАХА, **4**. НЕВДАЧА, **5**. НЕСТАЧА, **6**. НЕУСПІХ.

faint see 1. слабкий, 2. непритомність.

fair see 1. ЯСНО, 2. ЯРМАРОК, 3. ЧЕСНО, 4. чесний, 5. точно, 6. СПРАВЕДЛИВИЙ, 7. білявий, 8. НЕЗАПЛЯМОВАНИЙ.

fairly see 1. фактично, 2. ДОСИТЬ.

fairness see чесність.

fairy see 1. фея, 2. чарівний, 3. КАЗКОВИЙ.

**faith** *see* **1**. віра, **2**. вірність, **3**. ДОВІР'Я, **4**. ОБІЦЯНКА (promise).

**faithful** see 1. вірний, 2. відданий.

**fall** *see* **1**. падати, **2**. падіння, **3**. осінь, **4**. спад. **falling** *see* ПАДІННЯ.

**false** *see* **1**. фальшивий, **2**. неправдивий, **3**. хибний.

**fame** *see* **1**. слава (glory), **2**. ПОПУЛЯРНІСТЬ. **familiarity** *see* фамільярність.

**family** *see* **1**. родина, **2**. сім'я, **3**. сімейство, **4**. рід, **5**. родинний, **6**. співдружність.

famine see голод.

**famous** *see* **1**. знаменитий, **2**. СЛАВНИЙ, **3**. ВІДОМИЙ, **4**. СЛАВЕТНИЙ.

**fan** see 1. вентилятор, 2. віяло, 3. обмахувати, 4. роздмухувати, 5. уболівальник.

**fancy** *see* **1**. уявляти, **2**. фантазія, **3**. уява, **4**. МОДНИЙ, **5**. фантастичний.

fantastic see фантастичний.

fantasy see 1. уява, 2. фантазія, 3. КАПРИЗ.

far see 1. далеко, 2. НАБАГАТО, 3. ДАЛЕКИЙ. fare see тариф.

**farewell** *see* **1**. прощання, **2**. ПРОЩАТИСЯ, **3**. прощавайте.

farm see 1. ферма, 2. вирощувати.

farmer see 1. фермер, 2. OPEHДAP.

farming see 1. землеробство, 2. хліборобство.

fascination see чарівність.

fascism see фашизм.

fashion see 1. мода, 2. спосіб, 3. стиль, 4. фасон.

fashionable see модний.

fast see 1. швидкий (quick), 2. міцний, 3. МІЦНО,
 4. швидко, 5. хутко, 6. стійкий, 7. скорий, 8.
 НЕТОЧНИЙ, 9. засув, 10. ПРУДКИЙ.

faster see постник.

**fat** *see* **1**. товстий, **2**. жирний, **3**. жир, **4**. сало, **5**. гладкий.

fatal see 1. згубний, 2. фатальний.

fate see доля.

father see 1. батько, 2. Отець, 3. тато.

fatigue see 1. втома, 2. стомлювати.

**fault** *see* **1**. помилка (error, mistake), **2**. вина, **3**. ДЕФЕКТ, **4**. ПРОВИНА.

faulty see 1. помилковий, 2. хибний, 3. НЕДОСКОНАЛИЙ, 4. НЕПРАВИЛЬНИЙ, 5. ПОШКОДЖЕНИЙ.

**favour** *see* **1**. сприяти, **2**. ПРИХИЛЬНІСТЬ, **3**. ПОСЛУГА.

**favourable** *see* 1. прихильний, 2. сприятливий, 3. слушний.

favourite see 1. улюблений, 2. фаворит.

fax see факс.

fear see 1. страх, 2. боятися, 3. ПОБОЮВАННЯ. fearful see 1. жахливий. 2. боязкий. 3.

НАЛЯКАНИЙ.

feasible see 1. здійсненний, 2. можливий, 3. ПРИДАТНИЙ, 4. вірогідний, 5. імовірний.

**feast** see 1. бенкет, 2. свято, 3. бенкетувати, 4. пригощати.

**feature** *see* **1**. риса, **2**. ОЗНАКА, **3**. ОСОБЛИВІСТЬ.

federal see федеральний.

federation see 1. федерація, 2. союз.

fee see 1. гонорар, 2. внесок.

**feed** *see* **1**. годувати, **2**. ЖИВИТИ, **3**. їжа (food), **4**. КОРМ, **5**. харчування, **6**. харчувати.

feeding see 1. харчування, 2. живлення.

feel see 1. відчувати, 2. відчуття, 3. МАЦАТИ, 4. ПОЧУВАТИ.

feeling see 1. відчуття, 2. ЕМОЦІЯ, 3. чутливий. fell see 1. звалювати, 2. ШКУРА, 3. ХУТРО, 4. лютий, 5. ВАЛИТИ, 6. РУБАТИ.

**fellow** *see* **1**. товариш, **2**. ПАРУБОК, **3**. ПОБРАТИМ, **4**. хлопець (boy).

**fellowship** *see* **1**. товариство, **2**. КОРПОРАЦІЯ, **3**. братство.

felt see 1. фетр, 2. ПОВСТЬ.

female see 1. жіночий, 2. самка, 3. самиця.

feminine see 1. жіночий, 2. ЖІНКОПОДІБНИЙ.

feminism see фемінізм.

feminist see фемініст.

fence see 1. огорожа, 2. фехтувати, 3. тин.

ferry see пором.

fertile see 1. родючий, 2. рясний.

fertility see 1. достаток, 2. родючість.

festival see 1. фестиваль, 2. свято.

**fetch** see 1. приносити (bring), 2. принести.

feudal see феодальний.

fever see 1. лихоманка, 2. гарячка.

few see 1. мало, 2. НЕБАГАТО.

**fibre** see 1. волокно, 2. лико.

fiction see 1. белетристика, 2. вигадка, 3. фікція.

field see 1. поле, 2. лан, 3. ОБЛАСТЬ.

fierce see 1. лютий. 2. шалений. 3. ЖОРСТОКИЙ.

fifteen see п'ятнадцять.

fifteenth see п'ятналцятий.

fifth see п'ятий.

fifty see п'ятдесят.

fig see 1. інжир, 2. смоківниця, 3. фіга.

**fight** *see* **1**. битися, **2**. боротися, **3**. боротьба, **4**. бій

**fighter** see 1. боєць, 2. борець.

**figure** *see* **1**. фігура, **2**. ПОСТАТЬ, **3**. ЦИФРА, **4**. ЗОБРАЖАТИ.

file see 1. картотека, 2. ряд, 3. шеренга, 4. швидкозшивач, 5. НАПИЛОК, 6. ПИЛЯТИ, 7. НИЗКА, 8. ПИЛОЧКА, 9. ресструвати.

fill see 1. заповнювати, 2. наповнювати, 3. заповнити.

**filling** *see* **1**. заповнення, **2**. НАВАНТАЖЕННЯ, **3**. НАПОВНЕННЯ. **4**. ЗАЛИВАННЯ.

film see 1. плівка, 2. фільм.

filter see фільтр.

**filthy** *see* **1**. брудний, **2**. МЕРЗОТНИЙ, **3**. ОГИДНИЙ, **4**. розбещений.

**final** *see* **1**. ОСТАТОЧНИЙ, **2**. фінал, **3**. ОСТАННІЙ, **4**. ЗАКЛЮЧНИЙ.

**finally** *see* **1**. врешті-решт, **2**. ОСТАТОЧНО, **3**. врешті.

finance see 1. фінанси, 2. фінансувати.

financial see фінансовий.

**find** *see* **1**. знаходити, **2**. ЗНАЙТИ, **3**. відкриття, **4**. виявляти, **5**. ЗНАХІДКА.

finding see 1. знахідка, 2. відкриття, 3. орієнтація. fine see 1. штраф, 2. гарний, 3. витончений, 4. ЯСНИЙ, 5. ШТРАФУВАТИ, 6. ЧУДОВИЙ (wonderful), 7. прекрасний, 8. ДРІБНИЙ, 9. пеня, 10. ТОНКИЙ.

finger see палець.

finish see 1. завершувати, 2. кінчати, 3. закінчити, 4. фініш, 5. КІНЧИТИ, 6. закінчувати, 7. завершити, 8. КІНЕЦЬ.

finished see ЗАКІНЧЕНИЙ.

finishing see OFPOFKA.

finite see обмежений.

fire see 1. вогонь, 2. пожежа, 3. багаття.

fireplace see KAMIH.

firing see 1. стрільба, 2. ПІДПАЛЮВАННЯ.

**firm** *see* **1**. фірма, **2**. УЩІЛЬНЮВАТИ, **3**. ТВЕРДИЙ, **4**. СТІЙКИЙ, **5**. міцний.

firmly see 1. НЕПОХИТНО, 2. твердо, 3. міцно.

first see 1. перший, 2. спочатку.

firstly see по-перше.

fiscal see 1. фінансовий, 2. фіскальний.

**fish** see 1. риба, 2. риби, 3. рибалити.

fist see кулак.

fit see 1. ПІДХОЖИЙ, 2. ПРИСТОСОВУВАТИ, 3. ПРИСТОСОВАНИЙ, 4. ПРИДАТНИЙ, 5. ПІДХОДИТИ, 6. ПАСУВАТИ, 7. годитися, 8. відповідний (appropriate), 9. ПРИПАДОК.

**fitness** see 1. придатність, 2. ДОРЕЧНІСТЬ.

**five** *see* п'ять.

fix see 1. фіксувати, 2. ЗАКРІПЛЮВАТИ.

fixed see 1. НЕЗМІННИЙ, 2. НЕРУХОМИЙ.

**flag** *see* **1**. прапор, **2**. ПОВИСНУТИ, **3**. ЗНАМЕНО.

flame see 1. полум'я, 2. ПАЛАТИ.

flash see 1. промайнути, 2. спалах, 3. спалахувати.

flat see 1. квартира (apartment), 2. рівнина, 3. площина, 4. плоский, 5. ПЛОСКОДОННИЙ, 6. рівний, 7. ПЛАСКИЙ.

flavour see 1. apomat, 2. присмак.

fleet see 1. швидкий (quick), 2. флот, 3. флотилія.

**flesh** *see* **1**. тіло (body), **2**. М'ЯСО, **3**. плоть.

flexibility see гнучкість.

**flexible** *see* **1**. гнучкий, **2**. ЕЛАСТИЧНИЙ. **flight** *see* політ.

floating see 1. ПЛАВАННЯ, 2. рухомий.

**flock** *see* **1**. табун, **2**. зграя, **3**. НАТОВП, **4**. ПУШИНКА, **5**. стадо.

flood see 1. повінь, 2. ЗРОШУВАТИ, 3. ПОТІК.

floor see 1. підлога, 2. поверх.

floppy see 1. пасивний, 2. ЛІНИВИЙ.

flora see флора.

flour see 1. борошно, 2. порошок.

flow see 1. потік, 2. текти, 3. течія.

**flower** *see* 1. квітка, 2. цвіт, 3. квітнути, 4. цвісти. **flu** *see* грип.

fluid see 1. рідина, 2. рідкий, 3. флюїд.

**fly** *see* **1**. літати, **2**. муха, **3**. політ, **4**. летіти, **5**. ПОЛЕТІТИ, **6**. спритний.

flying see літання.

foam see піна.

focal see фокусний.

focus see 1. фокус, 2. ФОКУСУВАТИ.

fog see 1. туман, 2. ЗАТУМАНЮВАТИ, 3. імла. foliage see листя.

folk see народ.

**follow** *see* **1**. випливати, **2**. ДОТРИМУВАТИСЯ, **3**. переслідувати, **4**. СЛІДКУВАТИ.

following see 1. слідування, 2.

нижченаведений, 3. наступний.

fond see 1. НІЖНИЙ, 2. люблячий.

**food** *see* **1**. їжа, **2**. харчування, **3**. їда, **4**. ПРОДОВОЛЬСТВО, **5**. харчі.

fool see 1. дурень, 2. дурити, 3. ДУРНИЙ.

foolish see 1. НЕДОУМКУВАТИЙ, 2. ПРИДУРКУВАТИЙ, 3. дурний.

foot see 1. нога, 2. ступня, 3. ФУТ.

football see 1. футбол, 2. футбольний.

**for** *see* **1**. для, **2**. бо, **3**. заради, **4**. ПРОТЯГОМ, **5**.

forbidden see заборонений.

force see 1. сила. 2. ПРИМУШУВАТИ.

forced see НАТЯГНУТИЙ.

ford see брід.

forecast see 1. передбачати, 2. ПРОГНОЗ.

forehead see лоб.

**foreign** *see* **1**. чужий, **2**. ЗАКОРДОННИЙ, **3**. ЗОВНІШНІЙ, **4**. іноземний, **5**. сторонній.

foremost see передовий.

forest see ліс.

forestry see лісівництво.

forever see 1. назавжди, 2. вічність.

forget see 1. забувати, 2. ЗАБУТИ.

forgive see пробачати.

forgotten see забутий.

fork see 1. виделка, 2. відгалуження.

**form** *see* **1**. форма, **2**. формувати, **3**. бланк, **4**. постать, **5**. утворювати.

**formal** *see* **1**. формальний, **2**. ЗОВНІШНІЙ, **3**. ОФІЩІЙНИЙ.

format see 1. формат, 2. форматувати.

formation see 1. утворення, 2. формування.

former see 1. колишній, 2. минулий, 3. МОДЕЛЬ, 4. творець.

formerly see 1. раніше, 2. колись.

formidable see 1. грізний, 2. величезний.

formula see 1. формула, 2. ДОГМАТ, 3. рецепт.

formulation see формулювання.

fort see форт.

forth see надалі.

**forthcoming** *see* **1**. наступний, **2**. НАБЛИЖЕННЯ, **3**. ПРИЙДЕШНІЙ.

**fortunate** *see* **1**. сприятливий, **2**. щасливий (happy).

fortunately see 1. сприятливо, 2. щасливо.

**fortune** *see* **1**. багатство, **2**. доля, **3**. фортуна, **4**. талан, **5**. щастя.

forty see copok.

forum see форум.

**forward** *see* **1**. наперед, **2**. ПЕРЕДНІЙ, **3**. вперед, **4**. далі.

fossil see 1. скам'янілість, 2. скам'янілий.

foster see 1. ВИХОВУВАТИ, 2.

ВИХОДЖУВАТИ, 3. ЗАОХОЧУВАТИ.

**found** *see* **1**. засновувати, **2**. створювати, **3**. ОБГРУНТОВУВАТИ, **4**. ЗАСНУВАТИ.

**foundation** *see* **1**. фундамент, **2**. ЗАСНУВАННЯ, **3**. ОСНОВА.

founder see засновник.

fountain see 1. фонтан, 2. КЛЮЧ.

four see чотири.

fourteen see чотирнадцять.

fourteenth see чотирнадцятий.

fourth see четвертий.

fox see 1. лис, 2. лисиця.

fraction see 1. частка, 2. ДРІБ.

fragile see 1. крихкий, 2. тендітний, 3. ламкий.

fragment see 1. уривок, 2. уламок, 3. фрагмент.

frail see 1. тендітний, 2. тлінний, 3. хворобливий.

frame see 1. pama, 2. KAPKAC.

framework see 1. KAPKAC, 2. структура.

franchise see ПРИВІЛЕЙ.

frank see 1. Відвертий, 2. Франкувати, 3. щирий.

frankly see 1. відверто, 2. щиро.

frantic see шалений.

**fraud** *see* **1**. обман, **2**. шахрайство, **3**. ОБМАНШИК.

free see 1. звільняти, 2. безкоштовний, 3. вільний, 4. визволяти, 5. незалежний, 6. ЗВІЛЬНИТИ,

7. безплатно, 8. безплатний, 9. безкоштовно.

freedom see 1. свобода, 2. НЕЗАЛЕЖНІСТЬ, 3. воля.

freely see вільно.

**freezing** *see* **1**. замерзання, **2**. ЗАМОРОЖУВАННЯ.

freight see фрахт.

frequency see 1. частота, 2. частотність.

frequent see частий.

frequently see часто.

fresh see 1. свіжий, 2. НОВИЙ, 3. ПРІСНИЙ.

freshly see свіжо.

**friend** *see* **1**. друг, **2**. приятель, **3**. товариш, **4**. подруга.

friendly see 1. дружній, 2. прихильний, 3. ПРИЯЗНИЙ, 4. співчутливий, 5. ДРУЖЕЛЮБНИЙ.

friendship see 1. дружба, 2. ДРУЖЕЛЮБНІСТЬ. fringe see бахрома.

frog see жаба.

**front** *see* **1**. фронт, **2**. перед, **3**. передній, **4**. фасад. **frontier** *see* **1**. кордон, **2**. МЕЖА.

frost see мороз.

frozen see 1. заморожений, 2. ЗАМЕРЗЛИЙ.

fruit see 1. плід, 2. ФРУКТ, 3. ФРУКТИ.

frustration see 1. розлад, 2. розчарування, 3. KPAX.

fuel see 1. паливо, 2. пальне.

fulfil see 1. виконувати, 2. ЗДІЙСНЮВАТИ, 3. ЗАВЕРШУВАТИ.

**fulfilment** see **1**. здійснення, **2**. ЗАВЕРШЕННЯ, **3**. виконання.

full see 1. повний, 2. ДУЖЕ, 3. цілий.

fully see 1. повністю, 2. цілком.

fun see забава.

function see 1. функція, 2. функціонувати.

functional see функціональний.

**fund** *see* **1**. фонд, **2**. ЗАПАС, **3**. КАПІТАЛ, **4**. КОНСОЛІДУВАТИ, **5**. фінансувати.

**fundamental** see **1**. основний, **2**. ПРИНЦИП, **3**. КОРІННИЙ.

funds see КОШТИ.

funeral see 1. похорон, 2. похоронний.

**funny** see 1. смішний, 2. кумедний, 3. ДИВНИЙ, 4. чудний.

**fur** see **1**. хутро, **2**. НАКИП.

furious see оскаженілий.

furniture see 1. меблі. 2. вміст.

further see 1. далі, 2. сприяти, 3. ДОДАТКОВИЙ, 4. ПОДАЛЬШИЙ, 5. потім, 6. ПРОСУВАТИ. fury see шаленство.

fusion see 1. ПЛАВКА, 2. ОБ'ЄДНАННЯ. fuss see 1. метушня, 2. МЕТУШИТИСЯ. future see 1. майбутнє, 2. майбутній, 3. ПРИЙДЕШНІЙ, 4. МАЙБУТНІСТЬ.

# G

gain see 1. збільшення, 2. заробляти, 3. ЗДОБУВАТИ, 4. НАБУВАТИ, 5. ПРИРІСТ, 6. виграш.

galaxy see 1. галактика, 2. ПЛЕЯДА.

gall see 1. жовч, 2. ЖОВЧНІСТЬ, 3. ДРАТУВАТИ.

gallery see 1. галерея, 2. балкон.

game see 1. гра, 2. гри, 3. ПАРТІЯ, 4. сміливий.

 ${f gang}\ see\ 1$ . група (group),  ${f 2}$ . банда,  ${f 3}$ . бригада,  ${f 4}$ . НАБІР.

gap see 1. прогалина, 2. пролом, 3. ПРОБІЛ, 4. ПРОМІЖОК, 5. щілина.

garage see гараж.

garden see 1. сад, 2. город, 3. садок.

gardener see 1. садівник, 2. городник.

garlic see часник.

gas see 1. газ, 2. бензин, 3. газовий.

gastric see шлунковий.

gate see 1. ворота, 2. брама.

**gather** *see* **1**. збирати, **2**. збиратися, **3**. ЗБІР, **4**. НАБРАТИ.

gathering see 1. збори (meeting), 2. збирання, 3. ЗБІГОВИСЬКО, 4. КОМПЛЕКТУВАННЯ.

**gauge** see **1**. МІРА, **2**. РОЗМІР, **3**. КАЛІБР, **4**. ВИМІРЮВАТИ. **5**. масштаб.

gay see 1. веселий, 2. безпутний, 3. безтурботний, 4. радісний, 5. строкатий.

gaze see вдивлятися.

gear see механізм.

gender see piд.

gene see ген.

**general** *see* **1**. загальний, **2**. генерал, **3**. ПОВСЮДНИЙ.

**generally** *see* **1**. взагалі, **2**. ЗАГАЛОМ, **3**. ЗВИЧАЙНО.

generate see 1. генерувати, 2. ПОРОДЖУВАТИ, 3. спричиняти.

**generation** *see* **1**. генерація, **2**. покоління, **3**. ПОТОМСТВО, **4**. рід.

generic see 1. родовий, 2. ЗАГАЛЬНИЙ.

generosity see 1. щедрість, 2. великодушність.

**generous** *see* **1**. щедрий, **2**. великодушний, **3**. родючий, **4**. благородний.

genetic see генетичний.

genius see 1. геніальність, 2. геній.

genre see 1. ЖАНР, 2. МАНЕРА.

```
gentle see 1. лагідний, 2. м'який, 3. ДОБРИЙ, 4.
                                                      good see 1. гарний, 2. добрий, 3. добро, 4.
   НІЖНИЙ, 5. облагороджувати, 6.
                                                         користь, 5. хороший, 6. ПРИЄМНИЙ, 7.
   пом'якшувати, 7. приручати, 8. приручений, 9.
                                                         придатний, 8. КОРИСНИЙ, 9. благо, 10.
   родовитий.
                                                         вправний.
gentleman see джентельмен.
                                                      goodness see доброта.
gently see 1. лагідно, 2. НІЖНО, 3. ОБЕРЕЖНО.
                                                      goods see 1. майно, 2. товар, 3. вантаж, 4. речі, 5.
                                                         товари, 6. товарний.
gentry see джентрі.
genuine see 1. істинний, 2. справжній, 3.
                                                      goodwill see ДОБРОЗИЧЛИВІСТЬ.
   ДІЙСНИЙ (valid), 4. щирий.
                                                      gorgeous see 1. розкішний, 2. чудовий (wonderful).
genuinely see щиро.
                                                      gospel see Євангеліє.
geographical see географічний.
                                                      gossip see 1. базікання, 2. ПЛІТКИ, 3. базікати.
geography see географія.
                                                      gothic see готичний.
geological see геологічний.
                                                      governing see 1. головний, 2. КЕРІВНИЙ, 3.
                                                         ПРАВЛЯЧИЙ, 4. управляючий.
geology see геологія.
gesture see 1. жест, 2. ЖЕСТИКУЛЮВАТИ.
                                                      government see 1. уряд, 2. КЕРУВАННЯ, 3.
                                                         управління.
get see 1. діставати, 2. одержувати, 3.
   ОТРИМУВАТИ, 4. ПРИДБАТИ.
                                                      governmental see урядовий.
                                                      governor see 1. правитель, 2. губернатор, 3.
ghost see 1. привид, 2. примара.
giant see 1. велетень, 2. гігантський, 3. гігант.
                                                         КЕРУЮЧИЙ, 4. КОМЕНДАНТ.
gift see 1. подарунок, 2. ДАР, 3. ДАРУВАННЯ, 4.
                                                      gown see 1. сукня, 2. МАНТІЯ, 3. ПЛАТТЯ.
                                                      grab see 1. захоплення, 2. ЗАГАРБАННЯ, 3.
   ДАРУНОК.
gig see кабріолет.
                                                         ЗАХОПЛЮВАТИ, 4. ПРИВЛАСНЕННЯ, 5.
                                                         ПРИВЛАСНЮВАТИ. 6. хапати.
gill see 1. KOXAHA, 2. Дівчина.
                                                      grace see грація.
girl see 1. дівчина, 2. дівчинка, 3. служниця.
                                                      grade see 1. ступінь, 2. сортувати, 3. градус, 4.
give see 1. давати, 2. дарувати, 3. передавати, 4.
   ПОДАТИ, 5. ДАТИ, 6. НАДАВАТИ, 7.
                                                      gradient see 1. ухил, 2. градієнт.
   ПЛАТИТИ.
                                                      gradual see 1. поступовий, 2. ПОСЛІДОВНИЙ.
given see 1. даний, 2. ОБУМОВЛЕНИЙ.
                                                      gradually see поступово.
glad see 1. радісний, 2. задоволений, 3. радий.
                                                      grain see 1. зерно, 2. гран.
glamorous see чарівний.
glance see 1. погляд, 2. блиск.
                                                      grammar see граматика.
                                                      grammatical see граматичний.
glass see 1. скло, 2. склянка, 3. лінза, 4. шибка, 5.
                                                      grand see 1. грандіозний, 2. рояль, 3. важливий, 4.
glasses see 1. окуляри, 2. скло (glass).
                                                         головний.
                                                      grandfather see 1. дід, 2. дідусь, 3. ПРЕДОК.
glimpse see ПРОБЛИСК.
                                                      grandmother see 1. бабуся, 2. баба.
global see 1. світовий, 2. всесвітній, 3.
                                                      grandson see 1. ohyk, 2. bhyk.
   глобальний, 4. ЗАГАЛЬНИЙ.
                                                      granite see граніт.
gloom see темрява.
gloomy see 1. ПОХМУРИЙ, 2. ПОНУРИЙ.
                                                      grant see 1. дарувати, 2. дотація, 3. субсидія, 4.
                                                         ДАР, 5. ДАРУНОК.
glorious see 1. знаменитий, 2. славний, 3. чудовий
                                                      graph see 1. графік, 2. діаграма.
   (wonderful).
                                                      graphic see 1. графічний, 2. МАЛЬОВНИЧИЙ, 3.
glory see слава.
                                                         ОБРАЗОТВОРЧИЙ.
glossy see блискучий.
                                                      grasp see 1. схопити, 2. зрозуміти, 3. РУКОЯТКА,
glow see WAP.
                                                         4. СХОПЛЮВАТИ.
glucose see глюкоза.
                                                      grass see 1. трава, 2. ДЕРЕН, 3. ПАСТИСЯ.
go see 1. іти, 2. ходити (walk), 3. їхати, 4.
                                                      grateful see 1. вдячний, 2. благодатний, 3.
   ОБСТАВИНА, 5. працювати, 6. прямувати, 7.
                                                         ПРИЄМНИЙ.
   СПРОБА.
                                                      gratitude see 1. вдячність, 2. подяка.
goal see 1. мета, 2. ціль, 3. ворота, 4. гол, 5.
                                                      grave see 1. могила. 2. ПОВАЖНИЙ. 3.
   ЗАДАЧА.
                                                         ПОХМУРИЙ, 4. впливовий, 5. управитель, 6.
going see ходьба.
gold see 1. золото, 2. ЗОЛОТИЙ.
                                                         важливий, 7. вагомий, 8. ЗАГРОЗЛИВИЙ.
                                                      gravel see гравій.
golden see 1. золотий, 2. ЗОЛОТИСТИЙ.
                                                      gravitational see гравітаційний.
golf see гольф.
gone see розорений.
```

```
gravity see 1. HEBE3ПЕЧНІСТЬ, 2.
  СЕРЙОЗНІСТЬ, 3. гравітація, 4. важливість, 5.
  УРОЧИСТІСТЬ.
gray see 1. сірий, 2. СИВІТИ.
                                                                            Н
great see 1. великий (big), 2. величезний, 3.
  чудовий (wonderful).
                                                     habit see 1. звичай, 2. звичка, 3. статура, 4.
greatly see 1. дуже, 2. ЗНАЧНО, 3. благородно.
                                                        властивість.
green see 1. зелений, 2. ЗЕЛЕНЬ.
                                                     habitat see ЖИТЛО.
greenhouse see теплиця.
                                                     hair see 1. волосся, 2. щетина, 3. волосина, 4.
grey see 1. сірий, 2. сивіти.
                                                        волос, 5. вовна, 6. шерсть.
grid see решітка.
                                                     half see 1. половина, 2. наполовину.
grief see rope.
                                                     hall see 1. ЗАЛ, 2. ЗАЛА.
grim see 1. зловісний, 2. НЕВБЛАГАННИЙ.
                                                     halt see 1. зупинка, 2. ЗУПИНЯТИ, 3. вагатися.
grin see ПОСМІШКА.
                                                     ham see 1. шинка, 2. стегно.
grip see 1. ХВАТКА, 2. СХОПИТИ, 3.
                                                     hammer see молоток.
  СТИСНУТИ, 4. СТИСНЕННЯ, 5. СТИСК, 6.
                                                     hand see 1. рука, 2. вручати, 3. лапа, 4.
  влада (authority), 7. РОЗУМІТИ.
                                                        ПЕРЕНОСНИЙ, 5. ручний.
gross see 1. MACA (mass), 2. великий (big), 3.
                                                     handful see жменя.
  грос, 4. грубий.
                                                     handicap see 1. перешкода, 2. гандикап.
ground see 1. земля (earth), 2. ГРУНТ, 3.
                                                     handkerchief see 1. хусточка, 2. хустка.
  МІСЦЕВІСТЬ, 4. ПІДСТАВА, 5.
                                                     handle see 1. трактувати, 2. ДЕРЖАК, 3.
  ПРИЗЕМЛЯТИСЯ, 6. ПРИЧИНА.
                                                        ОБРОБЛЯТИ, 4. ПОВОДИТИСЯ, 5. рукоятка,
group see 1. група, 2. КЛАСИФІКУВАТИ, 3.
                                                         б. ручка.
  угрупування, 4. групувати.
                                                     handling see ПОВОДЖЕННЯ.
grow see 1. рости, 2. вирощувати, 3.
                                                     handsome see 1. вродливий, 2. значний.
  ЗБІЛЬШУВАТИСЯ, 4. вирости.
                                                     handwriting see почерк.
growing see 1. вирощування, 2. ріст.
                                                     handy see 1. вправний, 2. ПОРТАТИВНИЙ, 3.
growth see 1. ріст, 2. розвиток, 3. зростання, 4.
                                                        спритний.
  вирощування, 5. ПРИРІСТ.
                                                     hang see 1. висіти, 2. вішати, 3. розвішувати.
guarantee see 1. гарантія, 2. гарантувати, 3.
                                                     hanging see 1. вішання, 2. ПІДВІШУВАННЯ.
  ЗАСТАВА, 4. ПОРУЧИТЕЛЬ, 5. страхувати.
                                                     happen see 1. відбуватися, 2. траплятися.
guard see 1. охорона, 2. охороняти, 3. варта, 4.
                                                     happening see подія.
  берегти, 5. вартовий.
                                                     happily see 1. щасливо, 2. успішно.
guardian see 1. ОПІКУН, 2. Охоронець.
                                                     happiness see щастя.
guess see 1. ЗДОГАДКА, 2. ЗДОГАДУВАТИСЯ,
                                                     happy see 1. щасливий, 2. задоволений, 3. вдалий,
  3. ПРИПУЩЕННЯ.
                                                        радісний, 5. веселий.
guest see 1. гість, 2. ПОСТОЯЛЕЦЬ.
                                                     harbour see гавань.
guidance see керівництво.
                                                     hard see 1. твердий, 2. важкий, 3. жорсткий, 4.
guide see 1. провідник, 2. ДОВІДНИК, 3.
                                                        ТРУДНИЙ, 5. ДУЖИЙ, 6. важко, 7.
  ОРІЄНТИР, 4. КЕРУВАТИ.
                                                        ТЯЖКИЙ.
guilt see 1. вина, 2. гріх, 3. провина.
                                                     hardly see 1. ледве, 2. ледь, 3. різко.
guilty see 1. винний, 2. винуватий, 3.
                                                     hardship see 1. нестатки, 2. труднощі.
  ЗЛОЧИННИЙ, 4. винен.
                                                     hardy see 1. сміливий, 2. ВИТРИВАЛИЙ, 3.
guitar see гітара.
                                                        Відважний.
gulf see 1. пучина, 2. ПРІРВА, 3. ПОГЛИНАТИ.
                                                     harm see 1. шкода, 2. шкодити.
gun see 1. рушниця, 2. гармата, 3.
                                                     harmful see шкідливий.
  ОБСТРІЛЮВАТИ.
                                                     harmless see нешкідливий.
gut see 1. ПОТРОШИТИ, 2. КИШКА, 3.
                                                     harmony see 1. гармонія, 2. ЗЛАГОДА.
  НУТРОШІ.
                                                     harry see 1. Турбувати, 2. руйнувати, 3.
guv see опудало.
                                                        спустошувати.
                                                     harsh see 1. суворий, 2. різкий, 3. грубий, 4.
                                                        жорсткий.
                                                     harvest see 1. жати, 2. жнива, 3. урожай, 4.
```

врожай.

**hastily** *see* **1**. ПОСПІШНО, **2**. спішно, **3**. КВАПЛИВО, **4**. НЕОБАЧНО.

hat see 1. капелюх, 2. бриль.

hate see 1. ненавидіти, 2. ненависть.

hatred see ненависть.

have see мати.

hav see сіно.

hazard see 1. ризик, 2. ризикувати.

hazardous see 1. ризикований, 2.

НЕБЕЗПЕЧНИЙ.

hazel see ліщина.

**he** *see* він.

head see 1. голова, 2. очолювати, 3. спрямовувати, 4. ОЗАГЛАВЛЮВАТИ, 5. головний, 6. головка, 7. ОЧОЛИТИ, 8. КЕРІВНИК.

headache see НЕПРИЄМНІСТЬ.

header see МАГІСТРАЛЬ.

heading see 1. заголовок, 2. КУРС, 3. рубрика.

headline see ЗАГОЛОВОК.

headquarters see 1. штаб, 2. штаб-квартира.

health see 1. здоров'я, 2. ДОБРОБУТ.

healthy see 1. здоровий, 2. ЖИТТЄЗДАТНИЙ, 3. цілющий.

heap see 1. купа, 2. НАКОПИЧУВАТИ.

**hear** *see* **1**. чути, **2**. почути, **3**. слухати, **4**. вислуховувати.

**hearing** *see* **1**. слух, **2**. слухання.

heart see 1. серце, 2. ПОЧУТТЯ, 3. серцевина.

heat see 1. спека, 2. теплота, 3. НАГРІТИ, 4.

НАГРІВАТИСЯ, 5. НАГРІВАТИ, 6. тепло.

heater see 1. НАГРІВНИК, 2. ПІЧ, 3. радіатор.

heath see 1. верес, 2. Пустище.

heather see Bepec.

heating see 1. опалення, 2. нагрівання.

heaven see 1. небо (sky), 2. небеса.

heavily see 1. тяжко, 2. ОБТЯЖЛИВО.

heavy see 1. важкий, 2. тяжкий, 3. ОБТЯЖЛИВИЙ.

hector see 1. грубіян, 2. Хвалько.

hedge see 1. живопліт, 2. огорожа, 3. тин.

heel see 1. п'ята, 2. п'ятка, 3. каблук, 4. РЕБРО, 5. падлюка, 6. ШПОРА, 7. НЕГІДНИК, 8. грань, 9. підбор.

**height** *see* **1**. висота, **2**. висоти, **3**. височина, **4**. ЗРІСТ.

heir see 1. спадкоємець, 2. НАСТУПНИК.

helicopter see 1. гелікоптер, 2. вертоліт.

hell see пекло.

**hello** *see* **1**. привіт, **2**. АЛЛО.

helmet see 1. каска, 2. шолом.

**help** *see* **1**. допомога, **2**. помагати, **3**. допомагати, **4**. ПОМІЧНИК.

helpful see корисний.

helping see допомога (help).

helpless see 1. безпорадний, 2. безпомічний.

hemisphere see півкуля.

hence see 1. віднині, 2. звідси, 3. ОТЖЕ.

herd see 1. стадо, 2. череда, 3. пастух.

here see 1. сюди, 2. тут, 3. ось, 4. ОТ.

heritage see спадщина.

hero see герой.

heroic see 1. героїчний, 2. ПИШНОМОВНИЙ.

heroin see героїн.

**hesitation** *see* **1**. нерішучість, **2**. ЗАЇКАННЯ, **3**. вагання

hidden see 1. ПРИХОВАНИЙ, 2. схований.

hide see 1. ховати, 2. шкіра, 3. ПРИХОВУВАТИ,

4. сховати, 5. тайник, 6. ховатися.

hiding see ПРОЧУХАНКА.

hierarchy see 1. ієрархія, 2. теократія.

**high** *see* 1. високий, **2**. високо, **3**. верховний, **4**. вищий, **5**. сильно.

highlight see ОСВІТЛЮВАТИ.

**highly** *see* **1**. надзвичайно, **2**. дуже, **3**. високо, **4**. сприятливо.

highway see шосе.

**hill** *see* **1**. височина, **2**. гора (mountain), **3**. горб, **4**. ПАГОРБ.

hint see 1. натяк, 2. натякати.

**hip** see 1. стегно, 2. бік, 3. гребінь.

hire see 1. ПРОКАТ, 2. НАЙМАННЯ, 3.

НАЙМАТИ, 4. ОРЕНДА, 5. ОРЕНДУВАТИ.

historian see історик.

historic see історичний.

historical see історичний.

**history** see 1. історія, 2. МИНУЛЕ.

**hit** *see* **1**. удар, **2**. ударяти, **3**. бити, **4**. ударити, **5**. ПОШТОВХ, **6**. вдаряти.

hitherto see досі.

**hobby** see **1**. КОНИК, **2**. ПОНІ, **3**. хоббі, **4**. хобі.

**hold** *see* **1**. тримати (keep), **2**. володіти, **3**. ЗУПИНЯТИ, **4**. УТРИМУВАТИ, **5**.

вміщувати, **6**. влада (authority), **7**. ЗАХОПЛЕННЯ, **8**. ДЕРЖАТИ.

holder see 1. власник, 2. ДЕРЖАК, 3. ДЕРЖАТЕЛЬ, 4. ОРЕНДАР.

holding see 1. вклад, 2. ЗАПАС, 3. утримання.

hole see 1. діра, 2. дірка, 3. яма, 4. отвір (opening).

holiday see 1. свято, 2. відпустка, 3. святковий.

holland see НІДЕРЛАНДИ.

holly see гостролист.

holy see 1. священний, 2. святий, 3. святиня.

home see 1. вдома, 2. дім, 3. додому, 4.

ДОМАШНІЙ, 5. батьківщина.

homeless see 1. безпритульний, 2. бездомний.

homosexual see гомосексуаліст.

homosexuality see гомосексуалізм.

honest see 1. чесний, 2. правдивий, 3. справжній,4. щирий.

honestly see 1. чесно, 2. ПРАВДИВО.

honesty see 1. чесність, 2. правдивість.

honey see 1. мед, 2. любий.

honorary see 1. почесний, 2. НЕОПЛАЧУВАНИЙ.

honour see 1. шанувати, 2. честь, 3. благородство, 4. поважати (respect).

honourable see 1. почесний, 2. ШАНОВНИЙ, 3. ЧЕСНИЙ

hood see капюшон.

hook see 1. гак, 2. гачок, 3. КРЮЧОК.

hope see 1. сподівання, 2. надія, 3. сподіватися, 4. надіятися, 5. очікувати, 6. ущелина.

hopeful see багатообіцяючий.

hopefully see багатообіцяюче.

hopeless see 1. безнадійний, 2. безвихідний, 3. ЗНЕВІРЕНИЙ.

horizon see 1. горизонт, 2. обрій, 3. КРУГОЗІР.

horizontal see горизонтальний.

horn see pir.

horrible see 1. страшний, 2. жахливий.

horror see 1. жах, 2. відраза, 3. ОГИДА.

horse see кінь.

hospital see 1. лікарня, 2. госпіталь, 3. шпиталь. hospitality see гостинність.

host see 1. господар, 2. безліч, 3. трактирник, 4. хазяїн

hostile see ворожий.

hostility see ворожість.

hot see 1. гарячий, 2. ПАЛКО, 3. спекотний.

hotel see готель.

hour see година.

house see 1. будинок, 2. дім, 3. ПАЛАТА, 4. ПРИМІЩЕННЯ, 5. ДОМІВКА, 6. хата, 7. житло.

household see родина (family).

housekeeper see економка.

housewife see господиня.

how see як.

however see 1. проте, 2. однак, 3. АЛЕ.

huge see величезний.

hull see 1. лушпина, 2. КАРКАС, 3. КОРПУС.

human see 1. людина, 2. людський.

**humanity** *see* **1**. людство, **2**. гуманність, **3**. людинолюбство.

humble see 1. скромний, 2. смиренний, 3. упокорювати, 4. соромливий, 5. принижувати, 6. осоромлювати, 7. покірливий, 8. ПРОСТИЙ.

humiliation see приниження.

humour see 1. гумор, 2. настрій.

hundred see 1. сто, 2. сотня.

**hunger** *see* **1**. голод (famine), **2**. голодувати, **3**. ЖАДАТИ.

hungry see 1. голодний, 2. безплідний, 3. ЖАДАЮЧИЙ.

hunt see 1. полювати, 2. ПОЛЮВАННЯ.

hunter see мисливець.

hunting see 1. полювання, 2. ПОШУК.

hurricane see ураган.

hurry see 1. поспішати, 2. КВАПЛИВІСТЬ.

hurt see 1. ПОРАНИТИ, 2. ПОШКОДЖЕННЯ, 3. забити, 4. боліти, 5. шкода.

husband see чоловік (man).

hut see 1. халупа, 2. барак, 3. хата, 4. хатина.

hydrogen see водень.

hygiene see гігієна.

hypothesis see 1. гіпотеза, 2. ПРИПУЩЕННЯ.

# Ι

ice see 1. лід, 2. крига.

icy see 1. льодяний, 2. КРИЖАНИЙ, 3. льодовий, 4. льодовиковий, 5. холодний.

idea see 1. ідея, 2. думка, 3. уявлення, 4. ПЛАН, 5. ПОНЯТТЯ.

ideal see 1. ідеал, 2. ідеальний.

identical see 1. однаковий, 2. ідентичний, 3. тотожний.

identification see 1. ідентифікація, 2. ототожнення, 3. з'ясовування, 4. визначення, 5. пізнавання, 6. розпізнавання.

identifier see ідентифікатор.

identify see 1. визначати, 2. ідентифікувати, 3. ототожнювати, 4. розпізнавати, 5. ПІЗНАВАТИ.

**identity** *see* **1**. тотожність, **2**. ідентичність, **3**. індивідуальність, **4**. справжність.

ideological see ідеологічний.

**ideology** *see* **1**. ідеологія, **2**. світогляд. **idiot** *see* ідіот.

idiot see igioi.

idle see 1. лінивий, 2. МАРНИЙ, 3. НЕПРАЦЮЮЧИЙ, 4. НЕЗАЙНЯТИЙ.

if see 1. якщо, 2. чи (ог), 3. якби, 4. коли.

**ignorance** *see* **1**. неуцтво, **2**. НЕЗНАННЯ, **3**. НЕОСВІЧЕНІСТЬ.

ignorant see HEOCВІЧЕНИЙ.

ignore see 1. ігнорувати, 2. ЗНЕВАЖАТИ.

ill see 1. хворий, 2. шкода, 3. ЗЛЕ, 4. ЗЛИЙ, 5. зло, 6. ПОГАНИЙ (bad), 7. погано.

**illegal** *see* **1**. нелегальний, **2**. незаконний, **3**. ЗАБОРОНЕНИЙ.

**illness** see **1**. хвороба, **2**. ЗАХВОРЮВАННЯ.

illusion see ілюзія.

illustrate see 1. ілюструвати, 2. ПОЯСНЮВАТИ. illustration see 1. ілюстрація, 2. ПОЯСНЕННЯ, 3. ПРИКЛАД.

**image** *see* **1**. образ, **2**. зображення, **3**. відображення, **4**. імідж, **5**. відбивати.

imagery see 1. образність, 2. скульптура. imaginary see 1. уявний, 2. НЕРЕАЛЬНИЙ. imagination see 1. уява, 2. фантазія. imaginative see ОБРАЗНИЙ. imagine see 1. ДУМАТИ, 2. ЗДОГАДУВАТИСЯ, 3. ПРИПУСКАТИ, 4. уявляти. imitation see 1. імітація, 2. НАСЛІДУВАННЯ. immediate see 1. негайний, 2. НЕВІДКЛАДНИЙ, 3. безпосередній, 4. НАЙБЛИЖЧИЙ. immediately see 1. негайно, 2. безпосередньо, 3. відразу. immense see 1. величезний, 2. неосяжний, 3. чудовий (wonderful). immigration see імміграція. imminent see неминучий. immune see 1. звільнений, 2. ІМУННИЙ. immunity see 1. імунітет, 2. ЗВІЛЬНЕННЯ, 3. НЕДОТОРКАННІСТЬ. impact see 1. ЗІТКНЕННЯ, 2. ущільнювати, 3. удар, 4. імпульс, 5. вплив, 6. КОЛІЗІЯ. impatient see 1. нетерплячий, 2. ДРАТІВЛИВИЙ. imperial see 1. ІМПЕРАТОРСЬКИЙ, 2. імперіал, 3. ІМПЕРСЬКИЙ. impetus see поштовх. implement see 1. знаряддя, 2. ЗДІЙСНЮВАТИ. implementation see 1. здійснення, 2. виконання. implication see 1. причетність, 2. ЗАЛУЧЕННЯ. implicit see безумовний. implicitly see беззастережно. imply see НАТЯКАТИ. import see 1. імпортувати, 2. імпорт, 3. важливість, 4. ОЗНАЧАТИ, 5. ЗНАЧЕННЯ, 6. ввезти, 7. ввозити. importance see 1. важливість, 2. ЗНАЧЕННЯ. important see 1. значний, 2. важливий, 3. поважний. importantly see важливо. impose see 1. НАВ'ЯЗУВАТИ, 2. ОБКЛАДАТИ, 3. ОБМАНЮВАТИ, 4. ОПОДАТКОВУВАТИ. imposition see 1. оподаткування, 2. НАВ'ЯЗУВАННЯ, 3. НАКЛАДЕННЯ. impossible see 1. неможливий, 2. НЕЙМОВІРНИЙ. impress see 1. вражати, 2. враження (impression), 3. штампувати, 4. штемпель, 5. відбиток. impression see 1. враження, 2. уявлення, 3. відбиток, 4. ДРУКУВАННЯ. impressive see вражаючий. imprisonment see ув'язнення. improve see 1. поліпшувати, 2. ПОКРАЩУВАТИ, 3. ПОЛІПШИТИ. improvement see 1. поліпшення, 2. МЕЛІОРАЦІЯ, 3. удосконалення. impulse see 1. імпульс, 2. ПОШТОВХ, 3. спонука. in see 1. у, 2. в, 3. через, 4. всередині, 5. НА. inability see 1. нездатність, 2. НЕМОЖЛИВІСТЬ.

inadequate see 1. НЕВІДПОВІДНИЙ, 2. НЕАДЕКВАТНИЙ. inappropriate see невідповідний. incapable see нездатний. incentive see стимул. inch see дюйм. incidence see 1. ОХОПЛЕННЯ, 2. ПАДІННЯ. incident see 1. випадок (occasion), 2. випадковий, 3. інцидент, 4. ПОДІЯ, 5. властивий. incidentally see випадково. inclination see 1. нахил, 2. НАХИЛЕННЯ. inclined see схильний. include see 1. включати, 2. враховувати, 3. ЗВАЖАТИ, 4. МІСТИТИ. including see включаючи. inclusion see 1. включення, 2. ПРИЄДНАННЯ. income see 1. прибуток, 2. ЗАРОБІТОК. incompatible see несумісний. incomplete see 1. НЕДОСКОНАЛИЙ, 2. НЕЗАВЕРШЕНИЙ, **3**. НЕПОВНИЙ. inconsistent see 1. непослідовний. 2. НЕСУМІСНИЙ. incorporate see 1. ОБ'ЄДНАНИЙ, 2. ОБ'ЄДНУВАТИ, 3. об'єднуватися. incorporation see 1. об'єднання, 2. КОРПОРАЦІЯ. incorrect see 1. некоректний, 2. НЕПРАВИЛЬНИЙ, 3. НЕТОЧНИЙ. increase see 1. зростання, 2. ПІДВИЩЕННЯ, 3. ПРИРІСТ, 4. ПІДВИЩУВАТИ, 5. ЗБІЛЬШЕННЯ, 6. ЗБІЛЬШУВАТИ, 7. зростати. incredible see 1. НЕЙМОВІРНИЙ, 2. НЕПРАВДОПОДІБНИЙ. indeed see 1. дійсно, 2. справді, 3. НАСПРАВДІ. indemnity see 1. відшкодування, 2. КОМПЕНСАЦІЯ, 3. КОНТРИБУЦІЯ. independence see 1. незалежність, 2. самостійність. independent see 1. незалежний, 2. самостійний. index see індекс. indicate see 1. ОЗНАЧАТИ, 2. указувати, 3. вказувати. indication see 1. вказівка, 2. ОЗНАКА, 3. ПОКАЗАННЯ, 4. симптом. indicator see 1. індикатор, 2. ПОКАЗНИК, 3. лічильник. 4. ПОКАЖЧИК. indifference see 1. байдужість, 2. індиферентність. indifferent see 1. байдужий, 2. індиферентний, 3. МАЛОВАЖНИЙ. indigenous see 1. місцевий, 2. ПРИРОДНИЙ, 3. тубільний. indirect see 1. непрямий, 2. ПОБІЧНИЙ, 3. ухильний. individual see 1. індивідуальний, 2. ОКРЕМИЙ, 3. ОСОБА, 4. ОСОБИСТИЙ, 5. характерний. individually see індивідуально.

indoor see кімнатний.

induce see спонукати.

induction see 1. вступ, 2. індукція.

**industrial** *see* **1**. промисловий, **2**. виробничий, **3**. індустріальний.

**industry** *see* **1**. промисловість, **2**. індустрія, **3**. ПРАЦЬОВИТІСТЬ.

**ineffective** *see* **1**. НЕДІЙСНИЙ, **2**. НЕВМІЛИЙ, **3**. безрезультатний.

inefficient see 1. нездатний, 2. НЕЕФЕКТИВНИЙ. inequality see 1. МІНЛИВІСТЬ, 2. НЕРІВНІСТЬ, 3. НЕСПРОМОЖНІСТЬ.

inevitable see неминучий.

inexperienced see недосвідчений.

infant see 1. дитина (child), 2. НЕПОВНОЛІТНІЙ. infantry see піхота.

**infection** *see* **1**. ЗАРАЗА, **2**. ЗАРАЗЛИВІСТЬ, **3**. інфекція, **4**. ЗАРАЖЕННЯ.

inferior see 1. підлеглий, 2. гірший, 3. НИЖЧИЙ. infinite see 1. безмежний, 2. НЕСКІНЧЕННИЙ, 3. безконечний.

infinitive see інфінітив.

inflammatory see збудливий.

**inflation** see 1. інфляція, 2. НАДУВАННЯ, 3. роздутість.

influence see 1. вплив, 2. впливати, 3. вплинути. influential see впливовий.

**inform** *see* **1**. повідомляти, **2**. ДОНОСИТИ, **3**. інформувати.

**informal** *see* **1**. неформальний, **2**. НЕВИМУШЕНИЙ.

information see 1. ІНФОРМАЦІЯ, 2. СКАРГА. informative see 1. повчальний, 2. інформаційний. informed see ОБІЗНАНИЙ.

infrastructure see інфраструктура.

ingredient see інгредієнт.

inherent see 1. властивий, 2. НЕВІД'ЄМНИЙ, 3. ПРИРОДЖЕНИЙ.

**inheritance** *see* **1**. спадковість, **2**. спадщина, **3**. успадкування.

inhibition see 1. заборона, 2. стримування.

initial see 1. початковий, 2. первісний.

initiative see 1. вступний, 2. ініціатива.

injection see 1. ін'єкція, 2. упорскування.

injunction see 1. НАКАЗ, 2. ПРИПИС.

injured see ПОТЕРПІЛИЙ.

**injury** *see* **1**. ОБРАЗА, **2**. шкода, **3**. ПОШКОДЖЕННЯ.

injustice see 1. несправедливість, 2. КРИВДА. ink see чорнило.

inland see внутрішній.

inn see готель (hotel).

inner see внутрішній.

innocence see 1. невинність, 2. цнотливість, 3. ПРОСТОТА, 4. НАЇВНІСТЬ, 5. НЕВИНУВАТІСТЬ.

innocent see 1. невинний, 2. цнотливий, 3. безвинний, 4. безневинний, 5. наївний, 6. НЕВИНУВАТИЙ.

innovation see 1. нововведення, 2. HOBATOPCTBO.

input see 1. вклад, 2. вхід (entry).

inquest see слідство.

**inquiry** see 1. ДОВІДКА, 2. ДОСЛІДЖЕННЯ, 3. розслідування, 4. слідство.

insect see 1. комаха, 2. комахи.

**inside** *see* **1**. всередині, **2**. у (in), **3**. усередині, **4**. внутрішній.

**insight** *see* **1**. інтуїція, **2**. ПРОЗОРЛИВІСТЬ, **3**. розуміння.

insist see 1. НАСТОЮВАТИ, 2. НАПОЛЯГАТИ. insistence see наполегливість.

inspect see 1. інспектувати, 2. ОГЛЯДАТИ, 3. ОГЛЯНУТИ.

**inspection** *see* **1**. огляд, **2**. ЕКСПЕРТИЗА, **3**. інспектування, **4**. інспекція.

**inspector** *see* **1**. інспектор, **2**. НАГЛЯДАЧ, **3**. спостерігач.

**inspiration** *see* **1**. натхнення, **2**. вдихання, **3**. стимулювання.

instability see 1. нестабільність, 2. НЕПОСТІЙНІСТЬ.

**install** *see* **1**. встановлювати, **2**. улаштовувати, **3**. установити, **4**. установляти, **5**. встановити.

installation see 1. встановлення, 2. установка.

instance see 1. ЗРАЗОК, 2. ПРИКЛАД.

instant see 1. мить, 2. настійний.

**instantly** *see* **1**. НЕГАЙНО (immediately), **2**. відразу.

instead see замість.

instinct see інстинкт.

instinctively see інстинктивно.

**institute** see 1. інститут, 2. ЗАСНОВУВАТИ.

**institution** *see* 1. установа, 2. встановлення, 3. товариство.

**instruction** *see* **1**. НАВЧАННЯ, **2**. інструкція, **3**. інструктаж.

instructions see інструкції.

instructor see 1. інструктор, 2. учитель.

**instrument** *see* **1**. знаряддя, **2**. інструмент, **3**. ПРИЛАЛ.

instrumental see інструментальний.

insufficient see НЕДОСТАТНІЙ.

insulation see ізоляція.

insurance see 1. страхування, 2. страховий. intact see непошкоджений.

intake see 1. НАБІР, 2. ПОГЛИНАННЯ, 3. споживання.

integral see 1. повний, 2. НЕВІД'ЄМНИЙ, 3. інтегральний, 4. інтеграл, 5. цілий.

**integrate** *see* **1**. завершувати, **2**. інтегрувати, **3**. ОБ'ЄДНУВАТИ, **4**. суцільний.

integrated see інтегрований.

integration see інтеграція.

integrity see 1. цілісність, 2. чесність, 3. чистота, 4. НЕЗАЙМАНІСТЬ.

**intellectual** *see* **1**. інтелектуальний, **2**. інтелігент. **intelligence** *see* **1**. розум (mind), **2**. інтелект, **3**. інформація, **4**. розвідка.

intelligent see 1. розумний, 2. кмітливий.

intended see НАВМИСНИЙ.

intense see 1. інтенсивний, 2. вразливий, 3. ЗНАЧНИЙ, 4. НАПРУЖЕНИЙ, 5. сильний. intensity see 1. інтенсивність, 2.

НАПРУЖЕНІСТЬ.

intensive see інтенсивний.

intent see намір (intention).

**intention** see 1. намір (intent), 2. задум, 3. МЕТА. **interaction** see взаємодія.

intercourse see 1. відносини, 2. спілкування.

interest see 1. інтерес, 2. цікавити, 3. зацікавити, 4. відсоток, 5. ПРОЦЕНТ, 6. ЗАЦІКАВЛЮВАТИ.

interested see 1. зацікавлений, 2. упереджений.

interesting see цікавий.

interface see інтерфейс.

**interfere** *see* **1**. втручатися, **2**. НАБРИДАТИ, **3**. ЗАВАЖАТИ.

interference see 1. перешкода, 2. втручання.

interim see 1. тимчасовий, 2. ПРОМІЖНИЙ.

interior see внутрішній.

intermediate see 1. ПОСЕРЕДНИК, 2. ПРОМІЖНИЙ.

internal see внутрішній.

international see 1. міжнародний, 2. інтернаціональний.

interpret see 1. інтерпретувати, 2. перекладати, 3. ПЕРЕКЛАСТИ, 4. ПОЯСНЮВАТИ, 5. тлумачити.

interpretation see 1. інтерпретація, 2. ПЕРЕКЛАД, 3. тлумачення.

**interval** *see* **1**. інтервал, **2**. ПАУЗА, **3**. ПЕРЕРВА, **4**. АНТРАКТ, **5**. ПРОМІЖОК.

intervene see 1. втручатися, 2. відбуватися, 3. ПЕРЕШКОДИТИ.

intervention see 1. втручання, 2. інтервенція, 3. ПОСЕРЕДНИЦТВО.

interview see 1. інтерв'ю, 2. інтерв'ювати.

intestinal see кишковий.

intimacy see інтимність.

**intimate** *see* **1**. близький, **2**. інтимний, **3**. НАТЯКАТИ, **4**. ОСОБИСТИЙ.

intolerable see нестерпний.

intricate see 1. заплутаний, 2. складний.

intrinsic see 1. притаманний, 2. справжній. introduce see 1. вводити, 2. вносити, 3. запроваджувати, 4. ЗНАЙОМИТИ, 5. представляти, 6. УВОДИТИ, 7. ввести. introduction see 1. вступ, 2. ПЕРЕДМОВА, 3. ЗНАЙОМСТВО, 4. введення.

introductory see вступний.

invaluable see неоціненний.

invariably see незмінно.

**invasion** *see* **1**. вторгнення, **2**. ЗАЗІХАННЯ, **3**. НАВАЛА.

invention see 1. винахід, 2. ВИГАДКА, 3. ВИНАХІДЛИВІСТЬ.

inventory see 1. інвентар, 2. інвентаризація.

invest see 1. інвестувати, 2. ОБЛАЧАТИ.

investigate see 1. досліджувати, 2. ДОСЛІДИТИ, 3. розслідувати.

investigation see 1. дослідження, 2. слідство, 3. розслідування.

investment see 1. insectuuis, 2.

КАПІТАЛОВКЛАДЕННЯ, З. ОДЯГ.

investor see 1. вкладник, 2. інвестор.

invisible see 1. невидимий, 2. ТАЄМНИЙ. invitation see запрошення.

invite see 1. запрошувати, 2. ЗАПРОСИТИ.

involve see 1. включати, 2. вплутувати.

**involvement** *see* втягування. **iris** *see* ірис.

**iron** *see* **1**. прасувати, **2**. залізо, **3**. праска, **4**. залізний.

ironic see іронічний.

irony see іронія.

irrational see нераціональний.

irregular see нерегулярний.

irrelevant see недоречний.

irritation see роздратування.

island see octpib.

isolated see ізолюється.

isolation see ізоляція.

**issue** *see* **1**. видання, **2**. випускати, **3**. видавати, **4**. випуск, **5**. витікання, **6**. вихід, **7**. результат.

item see 1. пункт, 2. ПОВІДОМЛЕННЯ, 3. ПИТАННЯ.

T

jack see 1. Хлопець (boy), 2. Працівник.

jacket see 1. жакет, 2. ПІДЖАК.

jail see в'язниця (prison).

**jam** *see* **1**. варення, **2**. джем, **3**. стискання, **4**. стискати, **5**. ЗАТОР, **6**. тиснява.

jar see 1. банка, 2. трясти, 3. глек, 4. глечик, 5. ДЕРЕНЧАТИ, 6. СВАРИТИСЯ, 7. СВАРКА, **8**. СТРУС. jaw see щелепа. jay see сойка. jazz see 1. джаз, 2. ДЖАЗОВИЙ. jealous see 1. заздрісний, 2. ревнивий. **jealousy** see **1**. ревнощі, **2**. ЗАЗДРІСТЬ.

jelly see 1. желе, 2. ДРАГЛІ.

jet see 1. струмінь, 2. форсунка, 3. бризкати, 4. реактивний.

jewellery see коштовності.

job see 1. праця, 2. робота (work), 3. служба, 4. завдання, 5. урок, 6. посада, 7. труд, 8. спекулювати.

jockey see жокей.

join see 1. З'ЄДНУВАТИ, 2. приєднувати, 3. ПРИ€ДНУВАТИСЯ.

joining see З'ЄДНАННЯ.

joint see 1. спільний, 2. ОБ'ЄДНАНИЙ, 3. З'ЄДНАНИЙ, 4. стик.

jointly see спільно.

joke see 1. жарт, 2. жартувати, 3. дотеп, 4. кепкувати, 5. ПОЖАРТУВАТИ.

journal see 1. журнал, 2. газета (newspaper), 3. часопис, 4. щоденник.

journalism see журналістика.

journalist see ЖУРНАЛІСТ.

**journey** see 1. подорож (trip), 2. мандрівка, 3. поїздка.

joy see 1. радість, 2. утіха.

judge see 1. суддя, 2. судити, 3. арбітр, 4. ЕКСПЕРТ.

judgement see 1. вирок, 2. покарання, 3. КАРА, 4. судження.

judgment see вирок.

judicial see судовий.

jug see 1. глечик, 2. глек, 3. кухоль.

juice see cik.

jump see 1. стрибати, 2. скакати, 3. стрибок, 4. ЗДРИГАТИСЯ, 5. скочити.

**junction** see 1. з'єднання, 2. союз.

jungle see 1. ДЖУНГЛІ, 2. ЗАРОСТІ.

junior see молодший.

jurisdiction see юрисдикція.

jury see 1. ABAРІЙНИЙ, 2. ЖЮРІ, 3. ПРИСЯЖНІ.

just see 1. справедливий, 2. щойно, 3. точно, 4. тільки, 5. ледь, 6. саме, 7. ЗАСЛУЖЕНИЙ, 8. ОБГРУНТОВАНИЙ.

justice see 1. справедливість, 2. суддя, 3. юстиція, 4. законність, 5. ПРАВОСУДДЯ.

justification see виправдання.

justify see 1. виправдувати, 2. виправдовувати, 3. ПІДТВЕРДЖУВАТИ, 4. виправдати.

## K

keen see 1. ГОСТРИЙ, 2. пронизливий, 3. СИЛЬНИЙ.

keep see 1. тримати, 2. утримувати, 3. зберігати, 4. берегти, 5. ЗАЛИШАТИСЯ.

keeper see 1. власник, 2. ДОГЛЯДАЧ.

**keeping** see 1. зберігання, 2. розведення, 3. ДОГЛЯД, 4. ОХОРОНА.

ken see Кругозір.

kettle see чайник.

key see 1. клавіша, 2. ключ, 3. кнопка, 4. КЛАВІШ, 5. КЛЮЧОВИЙ, 6. риф, 7. роз'яснення.

keyboard see клавіатура.

khan see хан.

kick see 1. брикатися, 2. стусан, 3. поштовх, 4. УДАР.

kid see 1. ДИТИНА (child), 2. КОЗЕНЯ, 3. цапеня, 4. ягнитися.

kidney see нирка.

kill see 1. убивати, 2. убити, 3. розгромити, 4. вбивати, 5. ЗНИЩУВАТИ.

**killer** *see* **1**. вбивця, **2**. убивця.

**killing** see 1. убивство, 2. вбивчий, 3. ЗАБІЙ.

kin see рідня.

kind see 1. вид, 2. добрий, 3. рід, 4. характер, 5. люб'язний, 6. СЕРДЕЧНИЙ, 7. СЛУХНЯНИЙ, 8. СОРТ, 9. тип.

kindly see ПРИВІТНИЙ.

kindness see 1. ДОБРОТА (goodness), 2. ласка, 3. ПОСЛУГА, 4. ДОБРОЗИЧЛИВІСТЬ.

king see 1. король, 2. МАГНАТ, 3. МОНАРХ, 4.

kingdom see 1. королівство, 2. світ.

kinship see 1. подібність, 2. спорідненість.

kiss see 1. поцілунок, 2. цілувати, 3. ПОЦІЛУВАТИ, 4. цілуватися.

kit see 1. КОМПЛЕКТ, 2. СПОРЯДЖЕННЯ.

kitchen see кухня.

kite see шуліка.

knee see коліно.

knife see ніж.

knight see 1. лицар, 2. рицар.

knitting see в'язання.

knock see 1. стукати, 2. стук, 3. удар.

knot see 1. вузол, 2. МОТОК.

know see знати.

knowing see 1. знання, 2. ЗНАЮЧИЙ.

knowledge see 1. знання, 2. ЗНАЙОМСТВО, 3. HAУКА (science).

known see відомий.

## T.

label see 1. ярлик, 2. етикетка, 3. МІТКА. laboratory see лабораторія.

**labour** see 1. праця, **2**. робота (work), **3**. працювати, **4**. труд.

lace see 1. мереживо, 2. шнурок.

**lack** *see* **1**. недостача (shortage), **2**. відсутність, **3**. бракувати, **4**. брак.

lad see 1. юнак, 2. хлопець (boy).

ladder see драбина.

lady see 1. дама, 2. леді, 3. ПАНІ.

lake see озеро.

lamb see ягня.

lamp see 1. лампа, 2. ліхтар, 3. ОСВІТЛЮВАТИ, 4. світильник.

land see 1. земля (earth), 2. ПРИЗЕМЛИТИСЯ, 3. ПРИЗЕМЛЯТИСЯ, 4. суша, 5. КРАЇНА, 6. висаджуватися, 7. КРАЙ.

landed see ЗЕМЕЛЬНИЙ.

landing see 1. висадка, 2. ПРИЗЕМЛЕННЯ.

landlord see 1. господар, 2. ЗЕМЛЕВЛАСНИК, 3. лендлорд, 4. ПОМІЩИК.

**landscape** *see* **1**. ландшафт, **2**. КРАЄВИД, **3**. ПЕЙЗАЖ.

lane see 1. Провулок, 2. Прохід, 3. Стежка.

language see 1. мова, 2. МОВЛЕННЯ, 3. стиль.

**lap** *see* **1**. пола, **2**. ЗАГОРТАТИ, **3**. ПОДІЛ, **4**. ОХОПЛЮВАТИ, **5**. КОЛІНА.

large see великий (big).

largely see щедро.

laser see лазер.

**last** see 1. останній, 2. тривати, 3. ПРОДОВЖУВАТИСЯ, 4. КІНЕЦЬ, 5. ЗБЕРІГАТИСЯ, 6. витримувати, 7. вистачати, 8. МИНУЛИЙ.

**late** *see* **1**. пізно, **2**. пізній, **3**. покійний, **4**. допізна, **5**. ЗАПІЗНІЛИЙ.

lately see нещодавно.

latent see 1. латентний, 2. прихований.

later see 1. пізніше, 2. ПІЗНІШИЙ.

latter see 1. останній, 2. НЕДАВНІЙ.

laugh see 1. сміятися, 2. сміх.

laughter see 1. cmix, 2. perit.

**launch** *see* **1**. баркас, **2**. починати, **3**. ЗАПУСКАТИ, **4**. КИДАТИ.

launching see 1. ЗАПУСК, 2. ПУСКОВИЙ.

laundry see 1. пральня, 2. білизна.

lavatory see 1. убиральня, 2. туалет.

**law** *see* **1**. закон, **2**. правило, **3**. право, **4**. правила, **5**. суд, **6**. юриспруденція.

lawful see 1. ЗАКОННА, 2. ЗАКОННИЙ.

lawn see 1. газон, 2. батист.

lawyer see 1. адвокат, 2. ПРАВНИК, 3. юрист.

lay see 1. класти, 2. покласти, 3. світський, 4.

рельєф, **5**. ПРОКЛАДАТИ, **6**. МИРСЬКИЙ, **7**. ПОЛОЖЕННЯ, **8**. ПОВАЛИТИ, **9**.

НАКРИВАТИ, 10. відбуватися, 11. НАПРЯМ.

layer see 1. шар, 2. ПЛАСТ, 3. укладальник.

layout see план.

lazy see 1. лінивий, 2. ледачий.

lea see ПОЛЕ (field).

lead see 1. свинець, 2. вести, 3. поводок, 4. приклад, 5. КЕРУВАТИ, 6. КЕРІВНИЦТВО, 7. водити, 8. проводити, 9. повести.

leader see 1. керівник, 2. вождь, 3. лідер.

leadership see 1. керівництво, 2. управління.

leading see 1. ПРОВІДНИЙ, 2. керівництво.

leaf see 1. лист, 2. листок, 3. АРКУШ.

leaflet see 1. листівка, 2. листочок.

league see 1. ліга, 2. союз, 3. спілка.

lean see 1. нахилятися, 2. ПРИТУЛЯТИСЯ, 3. СПИРАТИСЯ, 4. ХУДИЙ, 5. бідний, 6. НАХИЛЯТИ, 7. пісний.

leaning see 1. нахил, 2. співчуття, 3. схильність. learn see 1. дізнаватися, 2. навчати (teach), 3. вивчити, 4. вивчати, 5. ДОВІДАТИСЯ, 6. ДОВІДУВАТИСЯ, 7. учити, 8. учитися, 9.

ДІЗНАТИСЯ. learned see 1. вчений, 2. учений, 3. НАУКОВИЙ, 4. ЕРУДОВАНИЙ.

learner see учень (pupil).

**learning** *see* **1**. вивчання, **2**. НАВЧАННЯ, **3**. ученість.

lease see 1. оренда, 2. ОРЕНДУВАТИ, consider also 3. здавати в оренду.

least see 1. НАЙМЕНШИЙ, 2. щонайменше. leather see шкіра.

leave see 1. відпустка, 2. залишати, 3. вирушати, 4. відійти, 5. ДОЗВІЛ, 6. ПОКИДАТИ, 7. ПРОШАННЯ.

leaving see 1. ЗАКІНЧЕННЯ, 2. ЗАЛИШЕННЯ. lecture see лекція.

lecturer see 1. лектор, 2. викладач, 3. ДЯК.

lee see укриття.

left see 1. лівий, 2. наліво, 3. ліворуч.

**leg** see **1**. нога (foot), **2**. гомілка, **3**. НІЖКА.

legacy see 1. спадщина, 2. спадок.

legal see 1. законний, 2. легальний, 3.

ПРАВОВИЙ, **4**. судовий, **5**. юридичний. **legend** *see* легенда.

legislation see 1. законодавство, 2. ЗАКОНИ.

legislative see законодавчий.

legitimacy see 1. законність, 2. ЗАКОНОМІРНІСТЬ.

legitimate see 1. законний, 2. усиновляти.

leisure see дозвілля.

lemon see лимон.

lend see 1. надавати, 2. позичати, 3. ПОЗИЧИТИ. length see 1. довжина, 2. відстань, 3. тривалість. lengthy see розтягнутий.

lens see лінза.

less see 1. менше, 2. менший, 3. МЕНШ.

lesser see менший.

lesson see 1. урок, 2. лекція.

let see 1. пускати, 2. дозволяти, 3. нехай, 4. хай.

lethal see 1. смертоносний, 2. смертельний.

letter see 1. літера, 2. буква, 3. лист.

level see 1. рівень, 2. вирівнювати, 3. рівний.

lexical see лексичний.

lexicon see 1. словник, 2. лексикон.

**liability** *see* **1**. відповідальність, **2**. ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАННЯ.

liable see 1. відповідальний, 2. СХИЛЬНИЙ.

liaison see зв'язок.

libel see 1. наклеп, 2. ДИСКРЕДИТУВАТИ.

liberal see 1. ліберал, 2. щедрий, 3. гуманітарний, 4. вільнодумний, 5. великодушний, 6. ліберальний.

liberation see 1. визволення, 2. ЗВІЛЬНЕННЯ. liberty see 1. свобода, 2. воля, 3. вільність.

librarian see бібліотекар.

librarv see бібліотека.

licence see ліцензія.

lid see 1. кришка, 2. КОВПАК, 3. ПОВІКА.

**lie** *see* **1**. брехати, **2**. брехня, **3**. лежати, **4**. ЛІГВО, **5**. неправда, **6**. перебувати.

life see 1. життя, 2. ДОВІЧНИЙ, 3. ІСНУВАННЯ.

lift see 1. піднімати, 2. ліфт, 3. ПІДНЯТТЯ, 4. ПІДНЯТИ, 5. підносити, 6. ПІДЙОМ, 7. ПІДВИЩУВАТИ, 8. ПІДНЕСЕННЯ.

light see 1. світло, 2. легкий, 3. освітлювати, 4. світлий, 5. інформація, 6. ОСВІТИТИ, 7. ОСВІТЛЕННЯ, 8. ЗАПАЛЮВАТИ, 9. ЗАПАЛИТИ.

lighter see 1. запальничка, 2. ЗАПАЛЮВАЧ. lighting see 1. ОСВІТЛЕННЯ, 2. світлотінь, 3.

lightly see 1. ЗЛЕГКА, 2. легко.

lightning see блискавка.

lights see легені.

like see 1. любити, 2. подібний, 3. подобатися, 4. схожий, 5. ОДНАКОВИЙ, 6. ПОДОБАТИСЬ, 7. сподобатися.

likelihood see 1. ЙМОВІРНІСТЬ, 2. імовірність.

likely see 1. певно, 2. імовірний.

likewise see 1. також, 2. ПОДІБНО.

lily see лілія.

limb see кінцівка.

lime see 1. вапно, 2. липа.

limestone see вапняк.

**limit** *see* **1**. межа, **2**. ліміт, **3**. обмежувати, **4**. границя.

limitation see 1. обмеження, 2. ОБМЕЖЕНІСТЬ. limited see обмежений

line see 1. риска, 2. лінія, 3. ряд, 4. черга, 5. рядок, 6. МЕЖА, 7. КОРДОН, 8. КОНВЕЄР, 9. НАПРЯМ

linear see лінійний.

linen see 1. ПОЛОТНО, 2. ПОЛОТНЯНИЙ.

linguistic see 1. лінгвістичний, 2. мовознавчий.

linguistics see 1. мовознавство, 2. лінгвістика.

link see 1. зв'язок, 2. ланка, 3. зв'язувати, 4. з'єднувати, 5. зчіплювати, 6. з'єднання, 7. ЗВ'ЯЗАТИ, 8. СПОЛУЧАТИ.

linking see ЗЧЕПЛЕННЯ.

lion see лев.

lip see губа.

liquid see 1. рідина, 2. рідкий.

liquidity see ліквідність.

**list** *see* **1**. список, **2**. ресстр, **3**. ПОРУЧЕНЬ, **4**. ПЕРЕЛІК, **5**. КРАЙ.

listen see 1. слухати, 2. СЛУХАТИСЯ.

literacy see 1. письменність, 2. грамотність.

literary see літературний.

literature see література.

litigation see позов.

litre see літр.

litter see НОСИЛКИ.

little see 1. небагато, 2. дрібний, 3. МАЛЕНЬКИЙ, 4. МАЛИЙ, 5. МАЛО, 6. незначний, 7. трохи.

live see 1. жити, 2. мешкати, 3. живий, 4. існувати, 5. ЖИТТЄВИЙ.

**lively** *see* **1**. живий, **2**. ЖВАВИЙ, **3**. ЖВАВО, **4**. ПОЖВАВЛЕНИЙ.

liver see 1. печінка, 2. гурман.

livestock see худоба (cattle).

living see 1. ЖИВИЙ, 2. ІСНУЮЧИЙ.

**load** see 1. вантаж, 2. ЗАРЯДЖАТИ, 3. тягар.

**loan** *see* **1**. позика, **2**. позичати, **3**. ПОЗИЧИТИ, **4**. ПОЗИЧКА.

**lobby** see 1. КУЛУАРИ, 2. лоббі, 3. лобі.

local see 1. місцевий, 2. локальний.

locality see місцевість.

locate see 1. розміщувати, 2. розташувати.

location see 1. МІСЦЕЗНАХОДЖЕННЯ, 2. ПОСЕЛЕННЯ.

loch see O3EPO (lake).

lock see 1. замок, 2. шлюз, 3. ЗАТОР, 4. ЗАМКНУТИ, 5. гальмувати, 6. ЗАМИКАТИ.

locomotive see локомотив.

lodge see будиночок.

log see колода.

logic see логіка.

logical see логічний.

loneliness see самотність.

lonely see самотній.

**long** *see* **1**. довгий, **2**. давно, **3**. тривалий, **4**. ДОВГО, **5**. ПРАГНУТИ.

look see 1. дивитися, 2. погляд, 3. виглядати, 4. глядіти, 5. глянути.

loop see петля.

loose see 1. вільний, 2. звільняти, 3. ПРОСТОРИЙ (spacious), 4. РОЗПУСКАТИ.

loosely see вільно.

**lord** *see* **1**. ПАН, **2**. ЛОРД, **3**. Господь, **4**. ГОСПОДАР.

lorry see грузовик.

**lose** *see* **1**. втрачати, **2**. втратити, **3**. губити, **4**. загубити, **5**. спізнитися, **6**. ПРОГРАВАТИ.

**loss** see 1. втрата, 2. збиток, 3. утрата.

lost see втрачений.

lot see 1. ділянка, 2. ДОЛЯ.

lotus see лотос.

loud see 1. гучний, 2. голосний.

loudly see шумно.

**love** *see* **1**. кохання, **2**. любов, **3**. кохати, **4**. любити, **5**. кохаю.

lovely see 1. гарний, 2. КРАСИВИЙ (beautiful).

lover see 1. коханець, 2. любитель, 3. улюблений, 4. ПРИХИЛЬНИК, 5. АМАТОР, 6. КОХАНИЙ.

loving see люблячий.

low see 1. низький, 2. тихий, 3. тихо, 4. НИЗЬКО,5. МУКАТИ, 6. МУКАННЯ, 7. вульгарний, 8. ПРИНИЖЕНО, 9. НЕВИСОКИЙ.

lower see 1. нижній, 2. опускати, 3. знижувати, 4.ПРИНИЖУВАТИ, 5. НИЖЧИЙ, 6. ЗНИЗИТИ,7. ЗНИЖУВАТИСЯ, 8. ОПУСКАТИСЯ.

loyal see 1. вірний (faithful), 2. лояльний, 3. відданий.

loyalty see 1. лояльність, 2. вірність.

luck see щастя.

lucky see 1. щасливий (happy), 2. вдалий.

lucrative see 1. вигідний, 2. ПРИБУТКОВИЙ.

luggage see багаж.

**lump** see 1. брила, 2. грудка.

lunch see 1. ланч, 2. ленч.

lung see 1. легеня, 2. легені.

luxurious see 1. розкішний, 2. МАРНОТРАТНИЙ.

luxury see 1. розкіш, 2. НАСОЛОДА.

lying see 1. брехливий, 2. брехня, 3. лежання, 4. НЕПРАВДА, 5. помилковий.

## M

machine see 1. механізм, 2. машина, 3. верстат. machinery see машини.

mad see 1. божевільний, 2. скажений, 3. шалений, 4 схиблений

madam see 1. мадам, 2. ПАНІ.

madame see Пані.

**made** *see* **1**. зроблений, **2**. складений, **3**. штучний, **4**. виготовлений.

madness see 1. божевілля, 2. безумство, 3. сказ.

magazine see 1. журнал, 2. часопис.

magic see 1. чарівний, 2. магічний, 3. МАГІЯ.

magical see 1. магічний, 2. чарівний.

magistrate see 1. МАГІСТРАТ, 2. суддя.

magnetic see 1. магнітний, 2. МАГНЕТИЧНИЙ.

magnificent see 1. чудовий (wonderful), 2. пишний.

magnitude see 1. величина, 2. велич, 3. важливість.

maid see служниця.

mail see 1. пошта, 2. КОЛЬЧУГА.

**main** *see* **1**. основний, **2**. ОКЕАН (ocean), **3**. головний.

mainland see материк.

mainly see переважно.

maintain see 1. підтримувати, 2. утримувати, 3. стверджувати.

**maintenance** *see* **1**. утримання, **2**. ПІДТРИМАННЯ.

majesty see 1. величність, 2. величавість.

major see 1. повнолітній, 2. майор, 3. більший, 4. важливіший.

majority see 1. більшість, 2. повноліття.

**make** *see* 1. робити, 2. складати, 3. чинити, 4. творити, 5. ПРИЗНАЧАТИ, 6. ЗАРОБЛЯТИ, 7. виробництво, 8. ЗРОБИТИ.

maker see 1. творець, 2. виробник, 3. фабрикант.

**making** *see* **1**. створення, **2**. творення, **3**. виробництво, **4**. форма.

male see 1. самець, 2. чоловік (man), 3. чоловічий. man see 1. чоловік, 2. людина (human), 3.

МУЖЧИНА, 4. слуга.

manage see 1. керувати, 2. ЗАВІДУВАТИ.

**management** *see* 1. управління, **2**. керування, **3**. менеджмент, **4**. АДМІНІСТРАЦІЯ, **5**. ДИРЕКЦІЯ.

**manager** *see* **1**. менеджер, **2**. управитель, **3**. керівник, **4**. ДИРЕКТОР, **5**. АДМІНІСТРАТОР, **6**. хазяїн, **7**. НАЧАЛЬНИК.

mandate see 1. мандат, 2. НАКАЗ.

mandatory see ОБОВ'ЯЗКОВИЙ.

manifesto see маніфест.

manipulation see 1. МАХІНАЦІЯ, 2. МАНІПУЛЮВАННЯ, 3. МАНІПУЛЯЦІЯ.

mankind see 1. людство, 2. чоловіки.

**manner** *see* **1**. манера, **2**. спосіб, **3**. стиль, **4**. МЕТОЛ.

manor see маєток.

mansion see особняк.

maternal see материнський.

manual see 1. ручний, 2. підручник, 3. посібник. manufacture see 1. виробництво, 2. ФАБРИКАЦІЯ, 3. виробляти. manufacturer see 1. виготовлювач, 2. фабрикант. manufacturing see 1. виробництво, 2. виробничий. manuscript see 1. рукопис, 2. рукописний. many see багато. map see 1. карта, 2. мапа. marathon see марафон. marble see 1. мармур, 2. МАРМУРОВИЙ. march see 1. березень, 2. Хід, 3. МАРШ, 4. МАРШИРУВАТИ. mare see кобила. margin see 1. край, 2. ЗАПАС. marginal see 1. граничний, 2. КРАЙНІЙ. marine see 1. морський, 2. флот. maritime see 1. морський, 2. ПРИМОРСЬКИЙ. mark see 1. знак, 2. відзначати, 3. ціль, 4. позначати, 5. Штампувати, 6. Штамп, 7. відбиток, 8. ПОЗНАЧИТИ, 9. Орієнтир, 10. МІШЕНЬ, **11**. МІТКА, **12**. Мітити, **13**. відзначити, 14. ПОЗНАЧКА. marked see 1. ПОЗНАЧЕНИЙ, 2. ПОМІТНИЙ. marker see mapkep. market see 1. ринок, 2. продавати (sell), 3. торгівля, 4. базар, 5. продаж (sale), 6. ЗБУТ, 7. збувати, 8. торгувати. marketing see 1. торгівля, 2. збут, 3. МАРКЕТИНГ. marking see 1. ЗАБАРВЛЕННЯ, 2. КЛЕЙМО. marriage see 1. шлюб, 2. весілля, 3. вінчання, 4. ОДРУЖЕННЯ. married see 1. одружений, 2. ЖОНАТИЙ. marry see 1. одружувати, 2. ОДРУЖУВАТИСЯ, ЖЕНИТИ. marsh see болото. marvellous see дивовижний. masculine see чоловічий. mask see 1. маска, 2. маскувати, 3. ПРОТИГАЗ. mason see 1. КАМЕНЯР, 2. MACOH.

mass see 1. маса, 2. скупчення, 3. КУПА, 4.

massive see 1. масивний, 2. МАСОВИЙ, 3.

ЗМАГАННЯ, 6. ПІДХОДИТИ.

спілкуватися, 5. чоловік (тап).

**4**. власник, **5**. магістр, **6**. ПАН, **7**. учитель, **8**.

match see 1. сірник, 2. матч, 3. рівня, 4. ПАРА, 5.

mate see 1. товариш, 2. самець, 3. самиця, 4.

material see 1. матеріал, 2. матеріальний, 3.

безліч. 5. МАСОВИЙ.

фахівець, 9. хазяїн.

шільний.

речовинний.

massacre see 1. різня, 2. різанина.

maternity see материнство. mathematical see математичний. mathematics see математика. matrix see матриця. matter see 1. матерія, 2. справа, 3. речовина, 4. матеріал, 5. ДІЛО, 6. гній, 7. ЗМІСТ. mature see 1. стиглий, 2. ДОЗРІВАТИ, 3. ДОЗРІЛИЙ, 4. ДОЗРІТИ, 5. ЗРІЛИЙ, 6. спілий. maturity see ЗРІЛІСТЬ. maxim see 1. принцип, 2. СЕНТЕНЦІЯ. maximum see 1. максимум, 2. максимальний. may see 1. травень, 2. могти. maybe see 1. можливо, 2. мабуть. mavor see mep. me see 1. мені, 2. мене. meal see 1. борошно, 2. годувати, 3. їжа (food), 4. mean see 1. середній, 2. середина, 3. означати, 4. ЗНАЧИТИ, 5. скупий, 6. ПОСЕРЕДНІЙ. meaning see значення. meaningless see безглуздий (absurd). means see 1. багатство, 2. ЗАСІБ, 3. спосіб. measure see 1. міра, 2. міряти, 3. вимірювати, 4. розмір, 5. ступінь, 6. МАСШТАБ. measured see 1. виважений, 2. виміряний, 3. стриманий. measurement see вимірювання. meat see 1. м'ясо, 2. ЗМІСТ. mechanical see 1. ABTOMAТИЧНИЙ. 2. МЕХАНІЧНИЙ, 3. МАШИННИЙ. mechanics see механіка. mechanism see 1. механізм. 2. техніка. medal see медаль. media see ПРЕСИ. median see 1. медіана, 2. серединний. medical see 1. медичний, 2. студент-медик. medicine see 1. медицина, 2. ліки, 3. чаклунство. medieval see середньовічний. medium see 1. ЗАСІБ, 2. МЕДІУМ, 3. ПОМІРНИЙ, 4. середній. meet see 1. зустрічати, 2. ЗУСТРІТИ, 3. ЗБИРАТИСЯ, 4. ЗБІР. meeting see 1. збори, 2. зустріч, 3. ЗАСІДАННЯ, 3ІБРАННЯ, 5. МІТИНГ. member see 1. член, 2. ЕЛЕМЕНТ. master see 1. господар, 2. оволодівати, 3. майстер, membership see членство. membrane see 1. мембрана, 2. ОБОЛОНКА. memorable see пам'ятний. memorandum see 1. МЕМОРАНДУМ, 2. НОТАТКА memorial see 1. пам'ятник, 2. пам'ятний, 3. МЕМОРІАЛЬНИЙ, 4. МЕМОРІАЛ. memory see 1. пам'ять, 2. спогад, 3. ЗГАДКА.

men see 1. люди, 2. чоловіки. miniature see 1. мініатюра, 2. мініатюрний. mental see 1. розумовий, 2. ПСИХІЧНИЙ. minimal see мінімальний. mentally see мислено. minimum see 1. мінімум, 2. мінімальний. mention see 1. згадувати, 2. ЗГАДАТИ, 3. minister see 1. міністр, 2. священик. ЗГАДУВАННЯ. ministerial see 1. міністерський, 2. службовий, 3. menu see меню. урядовий. merchant see 1. торговець, 2. КУПЕЦЬ. ministry see 1. міністерство, 2. ДУХІВНИЦТВО. mercy see 1. прощення, 2. милосердя, 3. minor see 1. ДРУГОРЯДНИЙ, 2. неповнолітній, МИЛІСТЬ, 4. ПОМИЛУВАННЯ. НЕЗНАЧНИЙ. mere see 1. озеро (lake), 2. ПРОСТИЙ, 3. сущий. minority see меншість. merely see 1. тільки, 2. лише, 3. ПРОСТО. minus see 1. мінус, 2. без, 3. негативний. minute see 1. хвилина, 2. НЕЗНАЧНИЙ, 3. merger see 1. злиття, 2. ОБ'ЄДНАННЯ, 3. ПОГЛИНЕННЯ. ДРІБНИЙ, 4. ДОКЛАДНИЙ. merit see 1. заслуга, 2. ДОСТОЇНСТВО, 3. minutes see протокол. ЗАСЛУГОВУВАТИ. miracle see 1. диво, 2. чудо. mess see 1. безладдя, 2. безлад, 3. їдальня, 4. mirror see 1. дзеркало, 2. відбивати. НЕПРИЄМНІСТЬ, 5. ПЛУТАНИНА, 6. miserable see 1. ЖАЛЮГІДНИЙ, 2. убогий. ПСУВАТИ. misery see 1. злидні, 2. страждання, 3. нещастя, 4. message see 1. повідомлення, 2. ДОРУЧЕННЯ. лихо, 5. бідність. metal see 1. метал, 2. МЕТАЛЕВИЙ, 3. щебінь. miss see 1. Mic, 2. Промах, 3. Промахнутися, 4. metaphor see метафора. Відсутність, **5**. втрата (loss), **6**. Пропустити. method see 1. метод, 2. система, 3. спосіб. missile see ракета. methodology see методологія. missing see відсутній. metre see 1. METP, 2. розмір. mission see 1. місія, 2. доручення, 3. делегація, 4. metropolitan see столичний. покликання. microphone see мікрофон. mist see 1. імла, 2. МРЯКА, 3. туман. microscope see мікроскоп. mistake see 1. помилка (error), 2. НЕПОРОЗУМІННЯ. microwave see мікрохвилі. mistaken see ПОМИЛКОВИЙ. midday see 1. полудень, 2. південь (south). mistress see 1. володарка, 2. ПАНІ, 3. хазяйка. middle see 1. середній, 2. середина. midnight see північ. mix see 1. мішати, 2. змішування, 3. змішувати, 4. сполучати, 5. місити, 6. З'ЄДНУВАТИСЯ, 7. midst see середина. суміш. might see 1. ЕНЕРГІЯ, 2. МІЦЬ, 3. mixed see 1. ЗМІШАНИЙ, 2. різнорідний. МОГУТНІСТЬ, 4. сила. mixture see 1. змішування, 2. мікстура, 3. суміш. mighty see могутній. mob see 1. натовп, 2. товпитися. migration see 1. міграція, 2. ПЕРЕЛІТ, 3. ПЕРЕСЕЛЕННЯ. mobile see 1. рухомий, 2. рухливий, 3. ЖВАВИЙ. mobility see 1. рухливість, 2. МІНЛИВІСТЬ. mike see 1. байдикування, 2. Мікрофон. mild see 1. м'який, 2. ПОМІРНИЙ, 3. тихий, 4. mode see 1. метод, 2. ЗВИЧАЙ, 3. форма. лагілний. model see 1. зразковий, 2. МАКЕТ, 3. МОДЕЛЬ, mildly see м'яко. 3РАЗОК, 5. МОДЕЛЮВАТИ. mile see миля. moderate see 1. помірний, 2. НЕВЕЛИКИЙ, 3. military see 1. військовий, 2. воєнний. ПОМІРКОВАНИЙ, 4. середній, 5. стримувати. milk see 1. молоко, 2. ДОЇТИ. modern see 1. сучасний, 2. НОВИЙ. mill see 1. млин, 2. молоти, 3. фабрика, 4. ЗАВОД, modest see 1. помірний, 2. скромний, 3. 5. ПОДРІБНЮВАТИ, 6. ПРЕС, 7. ДРОБИТИ. невеликий, 4. стриманий. miller see 1. Мірошник, 2. Фрезерувальник, 3. modification see 1. модифікація, 2. видозміна. МЕЛЬНИК. modify see 1. змінювати, 2. видозмінювати, 3. million see мільйон. ПОМ'ЯКШУВАТИ. mind see 1. розум, 2. думка, 3. дух, 4. заперечувати, 5. інтелект, 6. ПАМ'ЯТАТИ. modular see модульний. module see модуль. mine see 1. мій, 2. шахта, 3. рудник, 4. видобувати, 5. МІНУВАТИ, 6. moist see 1. вологий, 2. сирий, 3. вогкий. ПІДКОПУВАТИ. moisture see вологість.

mole see кріт.

mineral see 1. мінерал, 2. мінеральний.

molecular see молекулярний.

molecule see молекула.

**moment** see 1. мить, 2. момент, 3. хвилина, 4. важливість.

momentarily see щохвилини.

momentum see 1. імпульс, 2. ІНЕРЦІЯ.

monarch see монарх.

monarchy see монархія.

monastery see монастир.

**monetary** *see* **1**. грошовий, **2**. монетний, **3**. валютний, **4**. МОНЕТАРНИЙ.

money see гроші.

**monitor** *see* **1**. монітор, **2**. контролювати, **3**. радник, **4**. спостерігати, **5**. староста.

monitoring see МОНІТОРИНГ.

monkey see 1. мавпа, 2. ПЕРЕДРАЖНЮВАТИ. monopoly see монополія.

monster see 1. виродок, 2. МОНСТР, 3. ПОТВОРА.

month see місяць (moon).

monthly see 1. щомісячний, 2. МІСЯЧНИЙ, 3. шомісяця.

monument see 1. пам'ятник, 2. МОНУМЕНТ, 3. пам'ятка

mood see 1. настрій, 2. спосіб, 3. тональність.

moon see місяць.

moor see MAPOKKAHEЦЬ.

moral see 1. мораль, 2. моральний, 3. ПОВЧАННЯ, 4. ЕТИЧНИЙ.

morality see 1. ЕТИКА, 2. МОРАЛЬ.

morally see морально.

more see 1. більше, 2. більший, 3. більш, 4. ще.

morning see 1. ранок, 2. ПОЧАТОК.

mortality see 1. смертність, 2. ПАДІЖ.

mortgage see 1. застава, 2. заставляти, 3. ЗАСТАВНА, 4. ІПОТЕКА.

mosaic see 1. мозаїка, 2. мозаїчний.

most see 1. найбільший, 2. НАЙБІЛЬШЕ, 3. НАДТО.

mostly see 1. здебільшого, 2. звичайно.

mother see 1. мама, 2. мати.

motif see лейтмотив.

motion see 1. pyx, 2. XIД.

**motivation** *see* **1**. МОТИВУВАННЯ, **2**. спонукання, **3**. ЗАОХОЧЕННЯ.

motive see 1. мотив, 2. ПРИВІД, 3. руховий, 4. рушійний, 5. спонука.

motor see 1. двигун, 2. мотор.

motorway see ABTOMAГІСТРАЛЬ.

mould see 1. ПЛІСНЯВА, 2. формувати.

mount see 1. ВЕЛОСИПЕД (bicycle), 2.

підійматися, **3**. Підніматися, **4**. Сходження, **5**. Установлювати.

mountain see 1. гора, 2. гірський, 3. MACA (mass).

mounted see 1. КІННИЙ, 2. установлений.

mouse see миша.

moustache see 1. Byca, 2. Byc.

mouth see 1. poт, 2. вхід (entry), 3. уста.

**move** *see* **1**. рухати, **2**. ПЕРЕЇЖДЖАТИ, **3**. хід, **4**. рухатися, **5**. ПЕРЕЇХАТИ, **6**. ПОСУВАТИ, **7**. ворушити, **8**. рух.

**movement** *see* **1**. рух, **2**. ЖЕСТ, **3**. переїзд, **4**. хід. **movie** *see* **1**. кіно, **2**. фільм.

moving see 1. ПЕРЕМІЩЕННЯ, 2. рухливий, 3. рушійний, 4. ЗВОРУШЛИВИЙ.

much see 1. багато, 2. ЗНАЧНО, 3. сильно.

mud see 1. багно, 2. грязь, 3. твань, 4. МУЛ.

**muddy** *see* **1**. брудний, **2**. ДИМЧАСТИЙ, **3**. ЗАБРУДНЕНИЙ.

mug see кухоль.

multinational see багатонаціональний.

multiple see багаторазовий.

**mum** see 1. мама, 2. МАТУСЯ, 3. МОВЧАЗНИЙ.

**титу** see 1. мумія, 2. МАТУСЯ.

municipal see 1. муніципальний, 2. МІСЬКИЙ, 3. самоврядний.

murder see 1. убивство, 2. убивати.

murderer see убивця.

muscle see 1. м'яз, 2. мускул.

**muscular** *see* **1**. мускульний, **2**. МУСКУЛИСТИЙ, **3**. М'ЯЗИСТИЙ, **4**. М'ЯЗОВИЙ.

museum see музей.

music see 1. музика, 2. МУЗИКИ, 3. НОТИ.

musical see 1. музичний, 2. музикальний.

**musician** *see* **1**. музикант, **2**. вокаліст, **3**. КОМПОЗИТОР.

**must** see **1**. мусити, **2**. повинен, **3**. ПОВИННІСТЬ, **4** нвіль.

mutual see 1. взаємний, 2. ОБОПІЛЬНИЙ, 3. спільний.

mutually see взаємно.

mysterious see 1. таємничий, 2.

НЕЗБАГНЕННИЙ.

mystery see 1. таємниця, 2. містерія.

myth see міф.

## N

naked see 1. голий, 2. оголений, 3. голослівний, 4. НЕЗАХИЩЕНИЙ.

name see 1. називати, 2. ім'я, 3. назва, 4. прізвище,5. призначати, 6. НАЗВАТИ, 7. іменувати, 8. НАЙМЕНУВАННЯ.

namely see 1. CAME, 2. тобто.

**narrative** *see* **1**. оповідання, **2**. розповідний, **3**. повість.

```
narrow see 1. тісний, 2. вузький, 3. ОБМЕЖЕНИЙ.
```

**narrowly** *see* **1**. ДОКЛАДНО, **2**. ледве, **3**. тісно, **4**. вузько.

nasty see 1. бридкий, 2. огидний, 3. МЕРЗЕННИЙ, 4. НУДОТНИЙ, 5. НЕПРИСТОЙНИЙ, 6. паскудний, 7. КЕПСЬКИЙ, 8. ЗЛОБНИЙ, 9. ЗАГРОЗЛИВИЙ, 10. брудний, 11. НЕПРИЄМНИЙ, 12. НЕБЕЗПЕЧНИЙ.

**nation** *see* **1**. нація, **2**. народ, **3**. КРАЇНА, **4**. ДЕРЖАВА (state), **5**. АМЕРИКАНЦІ, **6**. НАРОДНІСТЬ.

**national** *see* **1**. народний, **2**. національний, **3**. громадянин, **4**. ДЕРЖАВНИЙ.

nationalism see націоналізм.

nationalist see 1. націоналіст, 2. націоналістичний.

nationality see 1. ГРОМАДЯНСТВО, 2. НАЦІЯ (nation), 3. НАЦІОНАЛЬНІСТЬ, 4. НАРОД.

**native** see 1. рідний, 2. місцевий, 3. уродженець. **natural** see 1. натуральний, 2. природний, 3. справжній.

**naturally** *see* **1**. природно, **2**. вільно, **3**. ЗВИЧАЙНО, **4**. ЗРОЗУМІЛО.

**nature** *see* **1**. природа, **2**. рід, **3**. сорт, **4**. КЛАС, **5**. вдача, **6**. єство, **7**. характер, **8**. НАТУРА.

naughty see 1. неслухняний, 2. вередливий, 3. ЗІПСОВАНИЙ, 4. ПРИМХЛИВИЙ, 5. ПУСТОТЛИВИЙ.

naval see 1. морський, 2. флотський.

**navigation** *see* **1**. навігація, **2**. КОРАБЛЕВОДІННЯ.

navy see 1. флот, 2. флотилія.

near see 1. близький, 2. поблизу, 3. біля, 4. близько, 5. ПОРУЧ, 6. ПРИ, 7.

НАЙБЛИЖЧИЙ, **8**. коло (circle), **9**. недалеко. **nearly** *see* **1**. майже, **2**. близько, **3**. ПРИБЛИЗНО.

**neat** see 1. акуратний, 2. чіткий, 3. віл, 4. ясний, 5. чистий, 6. чепурний, 7. ОХАЙНИЙ, 8. лаконічний, 9. вправний, 10. відточений, 11. бик (bull), 12. КОРОВА (cow).

**neatly** *see* **1**. ОХАЙНО, **2**. чітко, **3**. ясно, **4**. АКУРАТНО.

**necessarily** *see* **1**. обов'язково, **2**. НЕМИНУЧЕ, **3**. НЕОДМІННО.

necessary see 1. необхідний, 2. потрібний.

**necessity** *see* **1**. потреба, **2**. НЕОБХІДНІСТЬ, **3**. НЕМИНУЧІСТЬ, **4**. бідність, **5**. НУЖДА.

neck see 1. шия, 2. шийка.

**need** *see* **1**. потребувати, **2**. потреба, **3**. бідність, **4**. бідувати, **5**. ЗЛИДНІ, **6**. НУЖДА, **7**. потреби.

**needle** *see* **1**. голка, **2**. СПИЦЯ, **3**. стрілка. **needless** *see* **1**. непотрібний, **2**. зайвий.

needs see ПОТРЕБИ.

**negative** *see* **1**. негативний, **2**. від'ємний, **3**. НЕГАТИВ.

**neglect** *see* **1**. нехтування, **2**. нехтувати, **3**. ЗНЕВАГА, **4**. ЗНЕВАЖАТИ.

negligence see 1. недбалість, 2.

НЕДБАЙЛИВІСТЬ, 3. НЕОХАЙНІСТЬ.

**negotiate** *see* **1**. ДОМОВЛЯТИСЯ, **2**. реалізувати. **negotiation** *see* переговори.

**neighbour** *see* 1. сусідка, 2. сусід, 3. сусіда. **neighbourhood** *see* 1. округа, 2. район, 3.

сусідство, 4. близькість, 5. квартал, 6. сусіди.

**neither** *see* **1**. жоден, **2**. ніякий, **3**. ЖОДНИЙ, **4**. НІХТО.

nephew see 1. племінник, 2. небіж.

nerve see 1. нерв, 2. тятива.

**nervous** *see* **1**. нервовий, **2**. МУСКУЛЯСТИЙ, **3**. виразний, **4**. сильний, **5**. ДУЖИЙ.

nervously see нервово.

nest see гніздо.

net see 1. сітка, 2. мережа, 3. сіть, 4. тенета, 5. чистий, 6. сальдо, 7. ПАСТКА, 8. НЕТТО, 9. ЗАПАДНЯ, 10. ЗАГАЛЬНИЙ, 11. сіті.

**network** *see* **1**. мережа, **2**. сітка, **3**. СІТЬ, **4**. плетінка.

**neutral** *see* **1**. нейтральний, **2**. ПРОМІЖНИЙ, **3**. середній, **4**. безсторонній, **5**. байдужий.

neutrality see нейтралітет.

never see ніколи.

**nevertheless** *see* **1**. проте, **2**. все-таки, **3**. однак, **4**. одначе.

**new** *see* **1**. новий, **2**. свіжий, **3**. НОВІТНІЙ, **4**. ОНОВЛЕНИЙ, **5**. сучасний, **6**. НЕЗНАЙОМИЙ.

**newly** *see* **1**. наново, **2**. ПО-НОВОМУ, **3**. НЕДАВНО, **4**. ЗАНОВО, **5**. НЕЩОДАВНО, **6**. ЗНОВУ.

**news** *see* **1**. новина, **2**. новини, **3**. ЗВІСТКА. **newspaper** *see* **1**. газета, **2**. часопис.

**next** *see* **1**. наступний, **2**. потім, **3**. ЗНОВУ, **4**. МАЙБУТНІЙ, **5**. НАЙБЛИЖЧИЙ.

**nice** see 1. милий, 2. приємний, 3. гарний, 4. тактовний, 5. чутливий, 6. хороший, 7. уважний, 8. люб'язний, 9. тонкий, 10. смачний, 11. славний, 12. добрий, 13. ретельний, 14. витончений, 15. вишуканий, 16. точний (exact), 17. ЕЛЕГАНТНИЙ, 18. ДОКЛАДНИЙ, 19. скрупульозний.

nicely see 1. добре (well), 2. ПРИЄМНО, 3. гарно. nick see 1. Підрізати, 2. Щілина, 3. ШИЙКА, 4. Угадати, 5. Тріщина, 6. РОЗРІЗАТИ, 7. НАРІЗКА, 8. ЗАРУБКА, 9. Відрізати, 10. Проріз.

**night** *see* **1**. ніч, **2**. НІЧНИЙ, **3**. вночі, **4**. вечірній, **5**. вечір (evening), **6**. темрява. **nightmare** *see* **1**. кошмар, **2**. відьма.

nine see 1. дев'ять, 2. ДЕВ'ЯТКА.

nineteen see дев'ятнадцять.

nineteenth see дев'ятнадцятий.

ninety see дев'яносто.

ninth see дев'ятий.

nitrogen see азот.

no see 1. ні, 2. ніякий, 3. ЖОДЕН.

nobility see 1. знать, 2. шляхетність, 3.

ДВОРЯНСТВО, 4. велич, 5. великодушність, 6. благородство.

**noble** see 1. шляхетний, 2. благородний, 3. великодушний, 4. величавий, 5. величний, 6. ЗНАТНИЙ, 7. титулований, 8. чудовий (wonderful).

nobody see hixto.

**nod** see **1**. кивок, **2**. КИВАТИ.

node see 1. вузол, 2. ПОТОВЩЕННЯ.

noise see 1. шум, 2. галас, 3. гамір, 4. гомін.

noisy see 1. шумливий, 2. яскравий, 3.

КРИЧУЩИЙ, 4. галасливий, 5. шумний.

**nominal** see 1. номінальний, 2. ЗАГАЛЬНИЙ, 3. іменний, 4. ПОІМЕННИЙ, 5. умовний.

nomination see HOMIHAЦІЯ.

none see 1. ніхто, 2. жоден, 3. ніщо, 4. ніякий, 5. ЖОДНИЙ.

**nonsense** *see* **1**. безглуздя, **2**. дурниця, **3**. НІСЕНІТНИЦЯ, **4**. НОНСЕНС.

**noon** *see* **1**. південь (south), **2**. полудень, **3**. розквіт, **4**. ЗЕНІТ, **5**. північ.

**norm** see 1. норма, 2. правило.

**normal** see 1. нормальний, 2. звичайний, 3. СЕРЕДНІЙ, 4. звичний.

normally see нормально.

north see 1. північ. 2. Північний.

northern see Північний.

nose see 1. Hic, 2. HIOX.

not see 1. HI, 2. AHI, 3. HE.

**notable** *see* **1**. видатний, **2**. ПОМІТНИЙ, **3**. ЗНАЧНИЙ.

**notation** *see* **1**. ЗАПИС, **2**. НОТАЦІЯ, **3**. ПРИМІТКА.

note see 1. записка, 2. помічати, 3. нота, 4. примітка, 5. занотовувати, 6. відзначати, 7. записувати, 8. сповіщення, 9. ЗАЗНАЧАТИ, 10. НОТАТКА, 11. ПОВІДОМЛЕННЯ, 12. ПОСИЛАННЯ, 13. ЗАНОТУВАТИ, 14. розписка.

notebook see 1. зошит, 2. блокнот.

noted see 1. видатний, 2. відомий.

**nothing** *see* **1**. ніщо, **2**. нічого, **3**. НІСКІЛЬКИ, **4**. нуль (zero).

notice see 1. повідомлення, 2. помічати, 3. відмовляти, 4. ПОПЕРЕДЖАТИ, 5. ПОПЕРЕДЖЕННЯ, 6. сповіщення, 7. ПОВІЛОМЛЯТИ.

noticeable see 1. ПОМІТНИЙ, 2. ПРИМІТНИЙ.

**notion** see 1. поняття, 2. галантерея, 3. уявлення, 4. ПОГЛЯД, 5. HAMIP (intent, intention), 6. КЛАС, 7. КАТЕГОРІЯ, 8. ДУМКА, 9. винахід, 10. ідея.

**notorious** *see* **1**. загальновідомий, **2**. горезвісний, **3**. відомий.

notwithstanding see 1. ПРОТЕ, 2. ОДНАК.

noun see іменник.

novel see 1. новела, 2. роман, 3. новий.

**novelty** *see* **1**. нововведення, **2**. новизна, **3**. новина, **4**. НОВИНКА.

**now** *see* **1**. тепер, **2**. нині, **3**. зараз, **4**. НЕГАЙНО (immediately), **5**. НУ.

nowadays see 1. НИНІ, 2. тепер.

nowhere see 1. нікуди, 2. ніде.

nuclear see 1. ядерний, 2. АТОМНИЙ.

nucleus see 1. ядро, 2. центр.

**nuisance** *see* **1**. досада, **2**. НЕЗРУЧНІСТЬ, **3**. НЕПРИЄМНІСТЬ, **4**. ПЕРЕШКОДА, **5**. ПРИКРІСТЬ.

**number** *see* **1**. число, **2**. номер, **3**. сума, **4**. НАЛІЧУВАТИ, **5**. КІЛЬКІСТЬ, **6**. рахувати (count), **7**. цифра.

numerical see цифровий.

numerous see численний.

nurse see 1. годувальниця, 2. няня, 3. нянька, 4. доглядальниця, 5. плекати, 6. медсестра, 7. ссати, 8. пестити, 9. таїти, 10. смоктати, 11. НЯНЬЧИТИ, 12. МАМКА, 13. лікуватися, 14. годувати, 15. вигодовувати, 16. вирощувати.

**nursery** *see* **1**. інкубатор, **2**. рибник, **3**. розплідник, **4**. розсадник.

nursing see НЯНЬЧЕННЯ.

**nut** see **1**. горіх, **2**. гайка.

nuts see ГОРІХИ.

nylon see 1. нейлон, 2. НЕЙЛОНОВИЙ.

#### $\mathbf{O}$

oak see дуб.

**oath** see 1. клятва, 2. присяга, 3. богохульство, 4. божіння.

obedience see 1. покірність, 2. слухняність.

**obey** *see* **1**. слухатися, **2**. КОРИТИСЯ, **3**. ПІДКОРЯТИСЯ.

**object** *see* **1**. об'єкт, **2**. заперечувати, **3**. річ, **4**. протестувати, **5**. ПРЕДМЕТ, **6**. заперечую, **7**. ЗАПЕРЕЧИТИ, **8**. МЕТА.

objection see 1. заперечення, 2. ПРОТЕСТ, 3. НЕДОЛІК, 4. НЕЛЮБОВ, 5. НЕСХВАЛЕННЯ.

objective see 1. мета, 2. об'єктивний.

- **obligation** *see* **1**. зобов'язання, **2**. облігація, **3**. обов'язок, **4**. ОБОВ'ЯЗКОВІСТЬ.
- **obscure** *see* **1**. НЕСПРИЯТЛИВИЙ, **2**. ПОХМУРИЙ, **3**. НЕЯСНИЙ, **4**. ЗАТЕМНЮВАТИ, **5**. відлюдний, **6**. темний, **7**. НЕПОМІТНИЙ.
- **observation** *see* **1**. зауваження, **2**. спостереження, **3**. висловлювання, **4**. спостережливість, **5**. спостерігання.
- **observe** *see* **1**. спостерігати, **2**. стежити, **3**. вивчати, **4**. ЗАУВАЖУВАТИ, **5**. помічати.
- observer see 1. спостерігач, 2. ОГЛЯДАЧ. obsession see одержимість.
- obstacle see 1. перепона, 2. завада, 3. перешкода.
- obtain see 1. одержувати, 2. діставати, 3.
  ICНУВАТИ, 4. отримувати, 5. одержати, 6. набути, 7. набувати, 8. ЗДОБУВАТИ, 9.
  застосовуватися, 10. ДОСЯГАТИ, 11. ДОМАГАТИСЯ, 12. ДОБИВАТИСЯ, 13. ЛОБУВАТИ.
- **obvious** *see* **1**. очевидний (evident), **2**. явний, **3**. безсумнівний, **4**. зрозумілий, **5**. ясний.
- obviously see очевидно.
- occasion see 1. випадок, 2. подія, 3. ОКАЗІЯ, 4. НАГОДА, 5. ПРИВІД, 6. ОБСТАВИНА. occasional see випадковий.
- **occasionally** *see* **1**. часом, **2**. випадково, **3**. врядигоди, **4**. ЗРІДКА, **5**. іноді.
- оссираtion see 1. заняття, 2. фах, 3. ПРОФЕСІЯ, 4. ОКУПАЦІЯ, 5. ЗАЙНЯТІСТЬ, 6. ЗАВОЛОДІННЯ, 7. ЗАЙМАННЯ.
- occupational see професійний.
- occupied see зайнятий.
- оссиру see 1. займати, 2. ЗАПОВНЮВАТИ, 3. ЗАХОПЛЮВАТИ, 4. ОКУПУВАТИ, 5. ЗАВОЛОДІВАТИ.
- occur see 1. відбуватися, 2. траплятися, 3. ЗУСТРІЧАТИСЯ.
- осситенсе see 1. випадок (occasion), 2. ПОШИРЕННЯ, 3. ЗАЛЯГАННЯ, 4. ПОДІЯ. ocean see 1. океан. 2. безліч.
- o'clock see година.
- odd see 1. непарний, 2. НЕЗАЙНЯТИЙ, 3. чудний, 4. чудернацький, 5. ЗАЙВИЙ, 6. випадковий, 7. ДОДАТКОВИЙ, 8. ДИВНИЙ, 9. розрізнений.
- **odds** *see* **1**. нерівність, **2**. шанси, **3**. гандикап, **4**. ПЕРЕВАГА, **5**. різниця.
- odour see 1. запах, 2. аромат, 3. НАЛІТ, 4. пахощі, 5. присмак, 6. РЕПУТАЦІЯ, 7. СЛАВА (glory), 8. ДУШОК.
- off see 1. від, 2. вільний, 3. НИЗЬКОСОРТНИЙ, 4.
- **offence** *see* **1**. образа, **2**. ЗЛОЧИН, **3**. НАСТУП, **4**. ПРОВИНА, **5**. ПРОСТУПОК.

- offender see 1. кривдник, 2. ПРАВОПОРУШНИК, 3. ОБРАЗНИК.
- **offensive** *see* **1**. наступ, **2**. наступальний, **3**. ОБРАЗЛИВИЙ.
- **offer** *see* **1**. пропонувати, **2**. пробувати, **3**. ПРОПОЗИЦІЯ, **4**. траплятися.
- offering see 1. пропозиція, 2. ПРОПОНУВАННЯ, 3. ПОЖЕРТВА, 4. ПІДНОШЕННЯ, 5. ЖЕРТВОПРИНОШЕННЯ, 6. ЖЕРТВА, 7. ПОЖЕРТВУВАННЯ.
- **office** *see* **1**. контора, **2**. бюро, **3**. канцелярія, **4**. ФУНКЦІЯ, **5**. УПРАВЛІННЯ, **6**. СЛУЖБА, **7**. послуга, **8**. посада, **9**. ОФІС, **10**. МІНІСТЕРСТВО, **11**. КАБІНЕТ, **12**. знак, **13**. ВІДОМСТВО, **14**. ОБОВ'ЯЗОК.
- officer see 1. службовець, 2. офіцер, 3. чиновник.
  official see 1. службовий, 2. офіційний, 3.
  ПОСАДОВИЙ, 4. СЛУЖБОВЕЦЬ, 5.
  ЧИНОВНИК.
- officially see офіційно.
- offspring see 1. паросток, 2. результат, 3. ПЛІД, 4. НАЩАДОК, 5. ДІТИЩЕ, 6. ПРОДУКТ. often see часто.
- oh see 1. ox, 2. O.
- oil see 1. олія, 2. нафта, 3. мастило, 4. НАФТОВИЙ, 5. МАСЛО, 6. НАФТОПРОДУКТ.
- okay see 1. гаразд, 2. добре (well).
- old see 1. старий, 2. давній, 3. колишній, 4. НЕМОЛОДИЙ, 5. старовинний, 6. стародавній.
- omission see 1. пропуск, 2. УПУЩЕННЯ, 3. НЕДОГЛЯД, 4. ПРОПУСКАННЯ.
- on see 1. на, 2. по, 3. про, 4. над.
- **once** see **1**. КОЛИСЬ, **2**. раз.
- one see 1. один, 2. хтось, 3. одна, 4. єдиний (sole), 5. одиниця, 6. одне, 7. дехто.
- onion see 1. цибуля, 2. цибулина.
- only see 1. лише, 2. тільки, 3. єдиний (sole).
- onset see 1. натиск, 2. НАПАД, 3. ПОЧАТОК, 4. АТАКА
- open see 1. відкритий, 2. відчиняти, 3. відкривати,
  4. вільний, 5. відкрити, 6. відвертий, 7.
  відчинити, 8. відчинений.
- **opening** *see* **1**. отвір, **2**. вакансія, **3**. вихідний, **4**. НАГОДА.
- **openly** *see* **1**. відверто, **2**. відкрито, **3**. ПУБЛІЧНО. **opera** *see* опера.
- **operate** *see* 1. діяти, **2**. ЕКСПЛУАТУВАТИ, **3**. ЗАВІДУВАТИ, **4**. ОПЕРУВАТИ, **5**. ПРАЦЮВАТИ, **6**. розробляти, **7**. управляти.
- operating see 1. ПОТОЧНИЙ, 2. робочий, 3. ЕКСПЛУАТАЦІЙНИЙ, 4. ДІЮЧИЙ, 5. ОПЕРАЦІЙНИЙ.
- **operation** *see* **1**. дія, **2**. розробка, **3**. функціонування, **4**. робота (work), **5**.

```
ПРОЦЕС, 6. ОПЕРАЦІЯ, 7. ЕКСПЛУАТАЦІЯ.
```

operational see 1. оперативний, 2. ОПЕРАЦІЙНИЙ, 3. ПРАЦЮЮЧИЙ, 4. робочий.

**operator** see 1. оператор, 2. МЕХАНІК, 3. фабрикант, 4. телефоніст, 5. МАШИНІСТ, 6. ЗВ'ЯЗКІВЕЦЬ, 7. ДИСПЕТЧЕР, 8. радист.

**opinion** *see* **1**. думка, **2**. ПЕРЕКОНАННЯ, **3**. ПОГЛЯД.

**opponent** *see* **1**. опонент, **2**. противник, **3**. суперник, **4**. супротивник.

opportunity see нагода.

**oppose** *see* **1**. противитися, **2**. ПРОТИСТАВЛЯТИ.

**opposed** *see* **1**. гидкий, **2**. ПРОТИВНИЙ, **3**. ПРОТИЛЕЖНИЙ.

**opposite** *see* **1**. протилежний, **2**. навпроти, **3**. зворотний.

**opposition** *see* **1**. опір, **2**. контраст, **3**. опозиція, **4**. ПРОТИДІЯ, **5**. протилежність.

**oppression** *see* **1**. пригнічення, **2**. ПРИГНОБЛЕННЯ, **3**. тиранія, **4**. ПРИГНІЧЕНІСТЬ, **5**. гноблення, **6**. гніт, **7**.

optical see оптичний.

optimism see оптимізм.

optimistic see оптимістичний.

**option** *see* **1**. вибір, **2**. ОПЦІОН.

**optional** *see* **1**. необов'язковий, **2**. факультативний.

or see 1. або, 2. чи.

oral see усний.

orange see 1. апельсин, 2. оранжевий, 3. ЖОВТОГАРЯЧИЙ.

orbit see opбita.

orchestra see оркестр.

order see 1. порядок, 2. наказувати, 3. наказ, 4. лад, 5. замовлення, 6. розпорядження, 7. замовляти, 8. справність, 9. розпоряджатися, 10. ОРДЕР, 11. НАКАЗАТИ, 12. ЗАМОВИТИ, 13. ПОСЛІДОВНІСТЬ.

ordinary see 1. простий, 2. звичайний, 3. ординарний, 4. рядовий, 5. ЗВИЧНИЙ, 6. ПЕРЕСІЧНИЙ, 7. ПОСЕРЕДНІЙ.

**organ** *see* **1**. орган, **2**. установа, **3**. газета (newspaper), **4**. голос.

organic see 1. органічний, 2. взаємозалежний, 3. ОРГАНІЗОВАНИЙ, 4. ПОГОДЖЕНИЙ, 5. систематизований.

organism see організм.

organization see 1. ОРГАНІЗАЦІЯ, 2. ОРГАНІЗМ, 3. формування, 4. ОБ'ЄДНАННЯ. organize see 1. організовувати, 2.

ВЛАШТОВУВАТИ, 3. налагоджувати, 4. ОРГАНІЗУВАТИ, 5. УЛАШТОВУВАТИ.

oriental see 1. азіатський, 2. східний.

**orientation** *see* **1**. орієнтація, **2**. КООРДИНУВАННЯ, **3**. ОРІЄНТУВАННЯ.

origin see 1. джерело (source), 2. походження, 3. початок.

original see 1. початковий, 2. оригінал, 3. оригінальний, 4. первісний, 5. справжній, 6. ПЕРВИННИЙ, 7. СВОЄРІДНИЙ, 8. ПЕРШОДЖЕРЕЛО.

originally see 1. ОРИГІНАЛЬНО, 2. спочатку.

orthodox see 1. православний, 2. ортодоксальний, 3. ЗАГАЛЬНОПРИЙНЯТИЙ, 4. ПРАВОВІРНИЙ.

other see 1. інший, 2. другий.

otherwise see 1. по-іншому, 2. інакше.

out see 1. геть, 2. з, 3. ЗОВНІ.

outbreak see 1. бунт, 2. вибух, 3. ЗАКОЛОТ.

**outcome** *see* **1**. наслідок, **2**. вихід, **3**. результат, **4**. КІНЕЦЬ.

outdoor see ЗОВНІШНІЙ.

outer see зовнішній.

**outfit** see 1. спорядження, 2. устаткування, 3. ЕКІПІРУВАННЯ, 4. інструмент, 5. ОБЛАДНАННЯ, 6. ОБМУНДИРУВАННЯ.

outgoing see витрати.

**outlet** *see* **1**. вихід, **2**. віддушина, **3**. ПАСОВИЩЕ, **4**. стік.

**outline** *see* **1**. контур, **2**. нарис, **3**. начерк, **4**. ОБРИС.

outlook see 1. вид, 2. спостерігач, 3.

ПЕРСПЕКТИВА, 4. КРУГОЗІР, 5. КРАЄВИД.

**output** see **1**. видобуток, **2**. випуск, **3**. віддача, **4**. ПОТУЖНІСТЬ, **5**. ПРОДУКТИВНІСТЬ, **6**. ПРОДУКЦІЯ, **7**. результат, **8**. видобування.

outrage see 1. НАСИЛЬСТВО, 2. НАРУГА. outrageous see 1. обурливий, 2. шалений, 3. ОБРАЗЛИВИЙ, 4. ЖОРСТОКИЙ, 5. НЕСАМОВИТИЙ.

outset see 1. вирушання, 2. ПОЧАТОК.

**outside** *see* **1**. зовні, **2**. назовні, **3**. поза, **4**. ЗОВНІШНІЙ.

**outsider** *see* **1**. аутсайдер, **2**. сторонній, **3**. НЕФАХІВЕЦЬ, **4**. ПРОФАН.

**outskirts** *see* **1**. околиця, **2**. ПЕРЕДМІСТЯ, **3**. vзлісся.

outstanding see 1. видатний, 2. ЗНАМЕНИТИЙ, 3. ПРОСТРОЧЕНИЙ, 4. НЕВИКОНАНИЙ, 5. виступаючий, 6. НЕСПЛАЧЕНИЙ.

oven see 1. піч, 2. ДУХОВКА.

over see 1. через, 2. над, 3. понад, 4. ПО, 5. вище, 6. НАГОРІ.

overall see 1. повний, 2. всеосяжний, 3. граничний, 4. ЗАГАЛЬНИЙ.

overcome see 1. ПЕРЕМОГТИ, 2. ПОДОЛАТИ, 3. ПОБОРОТИ, 4. ОХОПИТИ, 5. ПЕРЕБОРОТИ, 6. ПЕРЕБОРЮВАТИ.

overlap see перекривати. overseas see 1. заморський, 2. ЗАОКЕАНСЬКИЙ. overt see 1. ПУБЛІЧНИЙ, 2. явний, 3. ОЧЕВИДНИЙ (evident), 4. відкритий (open), 5. overwhelming see 1. НЕЗДОЛАННИЙ, 2. НЕЗЛІЧЕННИЙ. З. НЕПЕРЕБОРНИЙ. 4. ПЕРЕВАЖАЮЧИЙ, 5. величезний. owe see ЗАБОРГУВАТИ. **owl** see **1**. сова, **2**. ДУРЕНЬ. own see 1. свій, 2. власний, 3. рідний, 4. МАТИ, 5. володіти. owner see 1. власник, 2. господар, 3. хазяїн. ownership see 1. власність, 2. володіння. oxygen see кисень. **ozone** see озон. P расе see 1. хода, 2. темп, 3. КРОК, 4. КРОКУВАТИ. pacific see 1. МИРНИЙ, 2. ТИХИЙ. раск see 1. зграя, 2. пакувати, 3. ПАКУНОК, 4. КОНСЕРВУВАТИ, 5. ПАКА, 6. ПАКЕТ. package see 1. пакувати, 2. ПАКА, 3. пакунок, 4. упаковка, 5. упаковувати, 6. упакувати. packed see 1. ПЕРЕПОВНЕНИЙ, 2. упакований, 3. ущільнений. packet see 1. пакет, 2. група (group). pact see пакт. pad see 1. подушка, 2. лапа, 3. щиток, 4. блокнот. page see 1. сторінка, 2. ПАЖ, 3. ПРИСЛУГОВУВАТИ. paid see 1. сплачений, 2. ОПЛАЧЕНИЙ, 3. ОПЛАЧУВАНИЙ, 4. ПЛАТНИЙ. pain see 1. біль, 2. страждання, 3. боліти, 4. горе, 5. МУЧИТИ. painful see 1. болючий, 2. болісний, 3. НЕПРИ€МНИЙ, 4. тяжкий. painfully see болюче. pains see ЗУСИЛЛЯ. paint see 1. фарба, 2. фарбувати. painted see 1. НАМАЛЬОВАНИЙ, 2. різнобарвний. painter see 1. маляр, 2. ЖИВОПИСЕЦЬ, 3. художник (artist). painting see 1. живопис, 2. картина (picture), 3. розпис. pair see 1. пара, 2. подружжя. pal see приятель. palace see 1. палац. 2. ОСОБНЯК. 3. резиденція. pale see 1. блідий, 2. бліднути, 3. КІЛ, 4. МЕЖА, ОГОРОЖА, 6. слабкий, 7. тьмяніти.

palm see 1. долоня, 2. пальма. pan see 1. сковорода, 2. каструля, 3. ПАН, 4. улоговина. panel see панель. panic see 1. паніка, 2. панічний, 3. лякати. papal see папський. paper see 1. папір, 2. паперовий, 3. стаття (article), 4. ДОКУМЕНТ. par see 1. рівність, 2. НОМІНАЛ. parade see 1. парад, 2. ПОКАЗ. paradigm see парадигма. paradise see рай. paradox see парадокс. paragraph see 1. параграф, 2. АБЗАЦ. parallel see 1. паралельний, 2. ПАРАЛЕЛЬ. parameter see *HAPAMETP*. paramount see 1. верховний, 2. головний. parcel see 1. пакунок, 2. ДІЛЯНКА, 3. ПАЧКА, 4. ПОСИЛКА, 5. тюк. pardon see 1. прощення, 2. прощати, 3. вибачати, 4. пробачення, 5. вибачити, 6. ПРОБАЧИТИ. parent see 1. БАТЬКО (father), 2. джерело (origin, source), 3. МАТИ, 4. предок, 5. РОДИТЕЛЬ. parental see батьківський. parents see батьки. paris see Париж. parish see парафія. park see 1. парк, 2. ЗАПОВІДНИК. parking see стоянка. parliament see парламент. parliamentary see парламентський. part see 1. частина, 2. роль, 3. розлучатися, 4. ЧАСТКА, 5. бік, 6. РОЗДІЛЯТИСЯ, 7. РОЗДІЛЯТИ, 8. УЧАСТЬ (participation). partial see 1. частковий, 2. НЕПОВНИЙ, 3. упереджений. partially see частково. participant see учасник. participate see 1. ПОДІЛЯТИ, 2. КОРИСТУВАТИСЯ. participation see 1. участь, 2. співучасть. particle see частка. particular see 1. особливий, 2. подробиця, 3. винятковий, 4. ДОКЛАДНИЙ, 5. ОКРЕМИЙ, 6. специфічний. particularly see 1. особливо, 2. ДУЖЕ, 3. ДОКЛАДНО, 4. індивідуально. partly see частково. partner see 1. партнер, 2. КОМПАНЬЙОН, 3. учасник. partnership see 1. участь (participation), 2. товариство. **party** see 1. партія, 2. команда, 3. вечірка, 4. КОМПАНІЯ, **5**. група (group), **6**. партійний. pass see 1. минати, 2. відбуватися, 3. МИНУТИ, 4. ПЕРЕДАВАТИ, 5. ПРОХІД, 6. ПРОХОДИТИ.

```
passage see 1. уривок, 2. хід, 3. проходження, 4.
                                                     penetration see 1. проникнення, 2.
  рейс, 5. пасаж, 6. проїзд, 7. прохід, 8.
                                                        ПРОНИКЛИВІСТЬ, 3. вторгнення.
  перетворення, 9. КОРИДОР, 10. ШЛЯХ (way),
                                                     penis see nenic.

 перехід.

                                                     penny see 1. пенні, 2. ПЕНС.
passenger see 1. пасажир, 2. ПАСАЖИРКА, 3.
                                                     pension see 1. пенсія, 2. ПАНСІОНАТ.
  сідок.
                                                     pensioner see пенсіонер.
passing see 1. проходження, 2. ПОБІЖНИЙ, 3.
                                                     people see 1. народ, 2. нація (nation), 3. люди, 4.
  скороминущий.
                                                        НАСЕЛЕННЯ.
passion see 1. пристрасть, 2. гнів, 3. запал.
                                                     pepper see перець.
passionate see 1. ЗАКОХАНИЙ, 2. ЗАПАЛЬНИЙ,
                                                     percent see 1. відсоток, 2. ПРОЦЕНТ.
  3. ПАЛКИЙ, 4. ПРИСТРАСНИЙ.
                                                     percentage see ПРОЦЕНТ.
passive see 1. пасивний, 2. бездіяльний.
                                                     perception see 1. відчуття, 2. сприймання, 3.
passport see паспорт.
                                                        сприйняття, 4. усвідомлення.
past see 1. минулий, 2. повз, 3. минуле.
                                                     perfect see 1. досконалий, 2. точний (exact), 3.
pat see 1. ПОПЛЕСКУВАННЯ, 2. ДОРЕЧНИЙ, 3.
                                                        ПОВНИЙ, 4. ЗАКІНЧЕНИЙ, 5. ідеальний.
  ПОПЛЕСКУВАТИ, 4. Своєчасний, 5.
                                                     perfection see 1. досконалість, 2. удосконалення.
  Своєчасно.
                                                     perfectly see 1. відмінно, 2. ДОСКОНАЛО, 3.
patch see 1. латка, 2. КЛАПТИК.
                                                        пілком.
patent see 1. патент, 2. явний, 3. ПРИВІЛЕЙ, 4.
                                                     perform see 1. виконувати, 2. грати.
  ОЧЕВИДНИЙ (evident), 5. ДИПЛОМ, 6.
                                                     performance see 1. виконання, 2. вистава, 3. ДІЯ,
  ПАТЕНТОВАНИЙ.
                                                        4. ЕФЕКТИВНІСТЬ, 5. ЗДІЙСНЕННЯ, 6. гра.
path see 1. шлях (way), 2. стежка, 3. ДОРІЖКА, 4.
                                                     perhaps see можливо.
  ПУТЬ, 5. ТРА€КТОРІЯ.
                                                     period see 1. період, 2. ЕПОХА.
pathetic see 1. зворушливий, 2. ПАТЕТИЧНИЙ.
                                                     periodic see 1. періодичний, 2. циклічний.
patience see 1. терпіння, 2. терплячість, 3.
                                                     peripheral see периферійний.
  НАПОЛЕГЛИВІСТЬ.
                                                     permanent see 1. постійний, 2. незмінний, 3.
patient see 1. пацієнт, 2. ПОРАНЕНИЙ, 3.
                                                        сталий, 4. ЗАЛИШКОВИЙ.
  терпеливий, 4. терплячий.
                                                     permission see дозвіл.
patrol see 1. патруль, 2. патрулювати, 3.
                                                     permit see 1. дозволяти, 2. дозвіл, 3. перепустка,
  ПАТРУЛЮВАННЯ.
                                                        4. ДОЗВОЛИТИ, 5. ліцензія.
patron see 1. ЗАСТУПНИК, 2. КЛІЄНТ, 3.
                                                     permitted see дозволений.
                                                     persistent see 1. наполегливий, 2. стійкий.
patronage see 1. шефство, 2. ЗАСТУПНИЦТВО.
                                                     person see 1. особа, 2. людина (human), 3.
pattern see 1. зразок, 2. модель, 3. викрійка.
                                                        ЗОВНІШНІСТЬ. 4. ОСОБИСТІСТЬ. 5.
pause see 1. пауза, 2. перерва, 3. ЗУПИНКА.
                                                        ПЕРСОНА, 6. ПЕРСОНАЖ.
pavement see 1. тротуар, 2. бруківка.
                                                     personal see 1. персональний, 2. ОСОБИСТИЙ.
рау see 1. платити, 2. оплачувати, 3. плата, 4.
                                                     personality see 1. особистість, 2. індивідуальність.
  винагорода, 5. ПЛАТНЯ, 6. сплачувати, 7.
                                                     personally see особисто.
  винагороджувати, 8. виплачувати.
                                                     personnel see 1. персонал, 2. штат.
payment see 1. винагорода, 2. ОПЛАТА, 3.
                                                     perspective see 1. перспектива, 2. вид.
  ПЛАТА, 4. сплата.
                                                     persuade see 1. переконувати, 2.
peace see 1. мир, 2. спокій, 3. тиша (silence).
                                                        ПЕРЕКОНАЙТЕ, 3. ПЕРЕКОНАТИ, 4.
peaceful see 1. тихий, 2. мирний, 3. спокійний.
                                                        умовити, 5. умовляти.
peak see 1. пік, 2. вістря.
                                                     persuasion see 1. переконання, 2.
peasant see селянин.
                                                        ПЕРЕКОНЛИВІСТЬ.
peasantry see селянство.
                                                     persuasive see переконливий.
peat see торф.
                                                     pet see 1. улюбленець, 2. ПЕСТИТИ, 3.
peculiar see 1. особливий, 2. ОСОБИСТИЙ.
                                                        улюблений.
pen see 1. перо, 2. ручка, 3. ПИСЬМЕННИК, 4.
                                                     petition see петиція.
  ПИСАТИ, 5. ЗАМИКАТИ.
                                                     petrol see бензин.
penal see кримінальний.
                                                     petty see 1. незначний, 2. вузький, 3.
penalty see 1. покарання, 2. штраф, 3. КАРА, 4.
                                                        НЕВЕЛИКИЙ.
  ПЕНАЛЬТІ.
                                                     phase see фаза.
pencil see 1. олівець, 2. пензель, 3. СКЛОРІЗ.
                                                     phenomenon see 1. феномен, 2. явище.
pending see 1. НЕЗАВЕРШЕНИЙ, 2.
                                                     philosopher see філософ.
  протягом, 3. невирішений.
```

```
philosophical see філософський.
                                                      plan see 1. план, 2. планувати, 3. ЗАДУМ, 4.
philosophy see філософія.
                                                         ПРОЕКТ, 5. схема.
phone see 1. телефон (telephone), 2. телефонувати.
                                                      plane see 1. вирівнювати, 2. плоский, 3.
                                                         ПЛОЩИНА, 4. рівень, 5. літак, 6. грань, 7.
photo see 1. фотографія, 2. фотографувати.
photograph see 1. фотографія, 2. фотографувати.
                                                         стругати.
photographer see фотограф.
                                                      planet see планета.
                                                      planning see 1. планування, 2. ЗЕМЛЕУСТРІЙ, 3.
photographic see фотографічний.
                                                         ПРОЕКТУВАННЯ.
photography see фотографія.
                                                      plant see 1. завод, 2. рослина, 3. саджати, 4.
phrase see 1. фраза, 2. словосполучення, 3. вислів.
                                                         установлювати, 5. установка, 6. урожай, 7.
physical see фізичний.
                                                         сіяти, 8. рослини, 9. ПОСАДИТИ, 10. ПОЗА,
physically see фізично.
                                                         11. салити.
physics see фізика.
                                                      plasma see плазма.
physiological see фізіологічний.
                                                      plaster see штукатурка.
piano see 1. фортепіано, 2. ПІАНІНО, 3. рояль.
                                                      plastic see 1. пластичний, 2. пластмаса, 3.
pick see 1. збирати, 2. вибирати, 3. шукати, 4.
                                                         пластмасовий. 4. ПЛАСТИКОВИЙ. 5.
  удар, 5. сортувати, 6. НАБРАТИ, 7. відбір, 8.
                                                         ПЛАСТИКА, 6. ліпний.
   відбирати, 9. вибір, 10. КОЛУПАТИ.
                                                      plate see 1. тарілка, 2. пластинка, 3. плита, 4.
picking see 1. ЗБИРАННЯ, 2. ЗЛОДІЙКУВАТИЙ,
                                                         МИСКА.
   3. розбирання, 4. сортування.
                                                      platform see 1. перон, 2. платформа, 3. трибуна, 4.
picnic see пікнік.
                                                         ПЛОЩАДКА.
picture see 1. картина, 2. фотографія, 3.
                                                      plausible see правдоподібний.
   зображення, 4. МАЛЮВАТИ, 5. МАЛЮНОК,
                                                      play see 1. гра, 2. грати, 3. п'єса, 4. виконувати, 5.
   6. ОПИСУВАТИ, 7. ПОРТРЕТ, 8.
                                                         гратися. 6. розвага.
   ЗОБРАЖУВАТИ, 9. фотографувати.
                                                      player see 1. гравець, 2. актор, 3. КАРТЯР, 4.
picturesque see 1. яскравий, 2. ЖИВОПИСНИЙ,
                                                         ПРОГРАВАЧ.
   3. КОЛОРИТНИЙ, 4. МАЛЬОВНИЧИЙ.
                                                      plea see виправдання.
ріе see 1. пиріг, 2. торт.
                                                      pleasant see 1. приємний, 2. славний, 3. МИЛИЙ.
piece see 1. штука, 2. кусок, 3. уламок, 4. шматок,
                                                      please see 1. догоджати, 2. подобатися, 3. хотіти,
   5. ДІЛЯНКА, 6. уривок, 7. частина.
                                                         бажати.
pig see свиня.
                                                      pleased see ЗАДОВОЛЕНИЙ.
pile see 1. купа, 2. НАВАНТАЖУВАТИ, 3.
                                                      pleasure see 1. задоволення, 2. насолода.
   нагромадження.
                                                      plenty see 1. багато, 2. безліч, 3. ДОСТАТОК.
pillow see подушка.
                                                      plight see 1. зобов'язання, 2. становище, 3. стан.
pilot see 1. льотчик, 2. пілот.
                                                      plot see 1. 3МОВА, 2. КРЕСЛЕННЯ, 3. ПЛАН, 4.
pin see шпилька.
                                                         сюжет.
pine see 1. сосна, 2. ЖАДАТИ, 3. чахнути.
                                                      plus see плюс.
pink see 1. рожевий, 2. гвоздика.
                                                      pocket see 1. кишеня, 2. кишеньковий, 3.
pint see пінта.
                                                         ПРИВЛАСНЮВАТИ, 4. луза.
pipe see 1. труба, 2. трубопровід, 3. люлька, 4.
                                                      poem see 1. вірш, 2. поема.
   СВИСТІТИ.
                                                      poet see поет.
piper see 1. дудар, 2. ДУДНИК.
                                                      poetic see 1. поетичний, 2. віршований.
pit see 1. яма, 2. ЗАПАДИНА, 3. шахта.
                                                      poetry see поезія.
pitch see 1. падати (fall), 2. смолити, 3. схил, 4.
                                                      point see 1. точка, 2. КРАПКА, 3. пункт, 4. ОЧКО,
  ступінь, 5. КИДАТИ, 6. КИДОК, 7.
                                                         5. УКАЗУВАТИ, 6. суть, 7. МОМЕНТ, 8. мета,
   ПАДІННЯ.
                                                         9. КІНЧИК, 10. вказувати, 11. СПРАВА.
pity see 1. жалість, 2. ЖАЛЬ, 3. співчувати, 4.
                                                      pointed see 1. гострий, 2. ЗАГОСТРЕНИЙ, 3.
                                                         ПІДКРЕСЛЕНИЙ.
place see 1. місце, 2. ставити, 3. ПОСАДА, 4.
                                                      pointing see ПУНКТУАЦІЯ.
   встановити, 5. вкладати, 6. ПРОСТІР.
                                                      pointless see 1. безцільний, 2. безглуздий (absurd).
placement see розміщення.
                                                      points see точки.
plain see 1. рівнина, 2. очевидний (evident), 3.
                                                      poison see 1. отрута, 2. отруювати, 3. ОТРУЇТИ.
   ясний, 4. відвертий, 5. ЗРОЗУМІЛИЙ, 6.
                                                      polar see полярний.
   ПРОСТИЙ, 7. розбірливо, 8. ясно.
                                                      pole see 1. полюс, 2. багор, 3. віха, 4. ПОЛЯК, 5.
plainly see відверто.
                                                         стовп.
plaintiff see позивач.
                                                      police see поліція.
```

```
post see 1. стовп, 2. пост, 3. пошта, 4. посада, 5.
policeman see 1. ПОЛІСМЕН, 2.
  ПОЛІЦЕЙСЬКИЙ.
                                                        щогла, 6. ставити, 7. розставляти, 8.
policy see 1. політика, 2. ПОЛІТИЧНІСТЬ, 3.
                                                        ПОЗИЦІЯ, 9. ПІДПІРКА, 10. вивішувати.
                                                     postal see поштовий.
  спритність.
polish see 1. полірувати, 2. польський, 3.
                                                     postcard see листівка.
  шліфувати, 4. лиск, 5. ПОЛІРОВКА, 6.
                                                     poster see 1. афіша, 2. ПЛАКАТ.
  ПОЛІРУВАННЯ, 7. ПОЛІТУРА, consider also
                                                     pot see 1. горщик, 2. КУХОЛЬ, 3. ЛУЗА.
  8. польська мова.
                                                     potato see 1. картопля, 2. КАРТОПЛИНА.
polite see 1. чемний, 2. люб'язний, 3. ввічливий, 4.
                                                     potent see 1. сильнодіючий, 2. МОГУТНІЙ.
  вишуканий.
                                                     potential see 1. потенціал, 2. можливий, 3.
politely see ввічливо.
                                                        потенційний.
political see 1. політичний, 2. ДЕРЖАВНИЙ.
                                                     pottery see кераміка.
politician see політик.
                                                     pound see 1. фунт, 2. бити, 3. товкти.
politics see політика.
                                                     pour see 1. лити, 2. розливатися, 3. виливати, 4.
poll see 1. голосування, 2. голосувати.
                                                        ЗЛИВА, 5. литися.
pollution see 1. забруднення, 2. розбещення, 3.
                                                     poverty see 1. БІДНІСТЬ, 2. убогість.
  ОСКВЕРНЕННЯ.
                                                     powder see 1. порошок, 2. пил, 3. порох, 4.
polymer see полімер.
                                                        ПУДРА, 5. ПУДРИТИСЯ.
polytechnic see політехнічний.
                                                     power see 1. сила, 2. потужність, 3. влада
pond see 1. ставок, 2. басейн, 3. водоймище.
                                                        (authority), 4. можливість, 5.
ponv see поні.
                                                        ПРОДУКТИВНІСТЬ, 6. степінь, 7.
pool see 1. басейн, 2. бюро, 3. калюжа, 4. ПУЛ, 5.
                                                        МОГУТНІСТЬ, 8. ДЕРЖАВА (state), 9.
                                                        ПРАВО.
                                                     powerful see 1. МОГУТНІЙ, 2. ПОТУЖНИЙ, 3.
poor see 1. бідний, 2. НЕЗАМОЖНИЙ.
                                                        сильний, 4. яскравий.
poorly see бідно.
                                                     practicable see 1. КОРИСНИЙ, 2. ПРОХІДНИЙ,
рор see постріл.
                                                        3. ЗДІЙСНИМИЙ, 4. ЗДІЙСНЕННИЙ.
роре see 1. пах, 2. священик.
                                                     practical see 1. практичний, 2. ЗРУЧНИЙ.
popular see 1. загальнодоступний, 2. народний, 3.
                                                     practically see 1. практично, 2. МАЙЖЕ, 3.
  популярний.
                                                        фактично.
popularity see популярність.
                                                     practice see 1. практика, 2. вправа, 3. ЗВИЧАЙ.
population see 1. населення, 2. заселення, 3.
                                                     practise see 1. тренувати, 2. тренуватися, 3.
  МЕШКАНЦІ.
                                                        ЗДІЙСНЮВАТИ, 4. ЗАСТОСОВУВАТИ, 5.
porch see 1. веранда, 2. ганок, 3. ПАПЕРТЬ, 4.
                                                        ПРАКТИКУВАТИСЯ.
  ПІД'ЇЗД, 5. ПОРТИК.
                                                     pragmatic see 1. прагматичний, 2.
pork see свинина.
                                                        ПРАКТИЧНИЙ.
port see 1. порт, 2. ПОРТВЕЙН, 3. ОТВІР
                                                     praise see 1. хвалити, 2. ПОХВАЛА, 3.
  (opening), 4. гавань, 5. ПРИТУЛОК (refuge).
                                                        ПОХВАЛИТИ.
portable see 1. портативний, 2. ПЕРЕНОСНИЙ.
                                                     pray see 1. благати, 2. молитися, 3. ПРОХАТИ.
porter see 1. носильник, 2. швейцар, 3. ПОРТЕР.
                                                     prayer see 1. молитва, 2. ПРОХАННЯ, 3.
portfolio see портфель.
                                                        ПРОХАЧ.
portion see 1. порція, 2. частина, 3. частка.
                                                     precious see 1. дорогоцінний, 2. дорогий, 3.
portrait see 1. портрет, 2. ЗОБРАЖЕННЯ.
                                                        коштовний, 4. цінний.
position see 1. позиція, 2. положення, 3. посада, 4.
                                                     precise see 1. точний (exact), 2. певний, 3. чіткий,
  МІСЦЕ, 5. стан, 6. становище.
                                                        4. ПЕДАНТИЧНИЙ, 5. ПУНКТУАЛЬНИЙ.
positive see 1. позитивний, 2. самовпевнений, 3.
                                                     precisely see точно.
  додатний, 4. вірний (faithful), 5. безсумнівний,
                                                     precision see 1. точність, 2. влучність, 3.
  точний (exact).
                                                        АКУРАТНІСТЬ.
positively see 1. позитивно, 2. безперечно, 3.
                                                     predator see хижак.
  безумовно, 4. КАТЕГОРИЧНО.
                                                     predecessor see 1. попередник, 2. ПРЕДОК.
possess see 1. володіти, 2. ЗАХОПЛЮВАТИ, 3.
                                                     predict see 1. ПРОВІЩАТИ, 2. ПРОРОКУВАТИ.
  МАТИ.
                                                     prediction see 1. ПЕРЕДБАЧЕННЯ, 2.
possession see 1. володіння, 2. ОДЕРЖИМІСТЬ.
                                                        ПРОРОКУВАННЯ, 3. ПРОРОЦТВО.
possibility see можливість.
                                                     prefer see 1. ПІДВИЩУВАТИ, 2. ПОДАВАТИ.
possible see можливий.
                                                     preferable see найкращий.
possibly see можливо.
                                                     preferably see КРАЩЕ.
```

```
preference see 1. перевага, 2. преферанс, 3.
                                                    pretend see 1. удавати, 2. симулювати, 3.
                                                       ПРЕТЕНДУВАТИ, 4. ПРИКИДАТИСЯ.
  преференція.
pregnancy see 1. вагітність, 2. ЗМІСТОВНІСТЬ.
                                                    pretty see 1. гарненький, 2. гарний, 3. чарівний, 4.
                                                       ДОСИТЬ, 5. ЗНАЧНИЙ, 6. ПРИВАБЛИВИЙ,
pregnant see 1. вагітна, 2. вагітний.
                                                       7. ПРИЄМНИЙ.
prejudice see 1. упередження, 2. ЗАБОБОН.
                                                    prevailing see 1. ПРЕВАЛЮЮЧИЙ. 2.
preliminary see попередній.
                                                       ПЕРЕВАЖАЮЧИЙ, 3. ПОШИРЕНИЙ.
premature see передчасний.
premier see 1. перший, 2. ПРЕМ'ЄР-МІНІСТР, 3.
                                                    prevalence see 1. переважання, 2. ПОШИРЕННЯ.
                                                    prevalent see 1. поширений, 2. ПЕРЕВАЖНИЙ.
  ПРЕМ'ЄР.
                                                    prevent see 1. ПОПЕРЕДЖУВАТИ, 2.
premium see 1. премія, 2. НАГОРОДА, 3.
                                                       ПЕРЕШКОДЖАТИ, 3. ЗАВАЖАТИ, 4.
  НАДБАВКА.
preoccupation see заклопотаність.
                                                       відвертати.
                                                    prevention see ЗАПОБІГАННЯ.
preparation see 1. підготовка, 2. приготування, 3.
                                                    previously see 1. ЗАЗДАЛЕГІДЬ, 2.
  ліки. 4. ПРЕПАРАТ. 5. ПРЕПАРУВАННЯ.
                                                       ЗАЗДЕЛЕГІДЬ, 3. раніше.
prepare see 1. приготувати, 2. готувати, 3.
                                                    prev see здобич.
  підготовляти, 4. підготувати, 5.
                                                    price see 1. ціна, 2. НАГОРОДА, 3.
  ГОТУВАТИСЯ.
prepared see 1. готовий, 2. ПІДГОТОВЛЕНИЙ.
                                                       ОШНЮВАТИ. 4. цінність.
prescription see 1. рецепт, 2. розпорядження, 3.
                                                    pride see гордість.
                                                    priest see 1. священик, 2. ППП.
  ПРИПИСАННЯ, 4. ПРИПИСУВАННЯ.
presence see 1. присутність, 2. сусідство, 3.
                                                    primarily see 1. спочатку, 2. спершу.
                                                    primary see 1. первинний, 2. початковий, 3.
  НАЯВНІСТЬ, 4. ПОСТАВА.
present see 1. присутній, 2. представити, 3.
                                                       головний. 4. ОСНОВНИЙ. 5. ПЕРВІСНИЙ.
  теперішній, 4. сучасний, 5. дарувати, 6.
                                                    prime see 1. головний, 2. ПОЧАТКОВИЙ, 3.
  нинішній, 7. подарунок, 8. показувати, 9. бути,
                                                       ПЕРВИННИЙ, 4. чудовий (wonderful), 5.
  10. підносити, 11. передавати, 12. НАЯВНИЙ,
                                                       розквіт, 6. ПЕРВІСНИЙ, 7. весна (spring), 8.
   13. ДАРУНОК, 14. ДАНИЙ, 15. подавати, 16.
                                                       ПЕРШИЙ.
  ПРЕДСТАВЛЯТИ.
                                                    primitive see 1. примітивний, 2. первісний, 3.
presentation see 1. ПРЕЗЕНТАЦІЯ, 2.
                                                       грубий, 4. ОСНОВНИЙ.
  ПРЕД'ЯВЛЕННЯ, 3. ПРЕДСТАВЛЕННЯ, 4.
                                                    prince see 1. князь, 2. принц, 3. правитель.
  ПОДАРУНОК, 5. ПОДАННЯ, 6. виклад, 7.
                                                    princess see 1. княгиня, 2. принцеса.
  ПІДНЕСЕННЯ.
                                                    principal see 1. головний, 2. основний, 3.
presently see 1. тепер, 2. зараз, 3. незабаром.
                                                       КАПІТАЛ. 4. найважливіший. 5. провідний. 6.
preservation see 1. ЗАПОБІГАННЯ, 2.
                                                       ГЛАВА.
  ЗБЕРЕЖЕННЯ, 3. ЗБЕРІГАННЯ, 4.
                                                    principally see ПЕРЕВАЖНО.
  КОНСЕРВУВАННЯ, 5. схоронність.
                                                    principle see 1. принцип, 2. ОСНОВА, 3.
preserve see 1. зберігати, 2. ЗБЕРЕГТИ, 3.
                                                       ПЕРШОПРИЧИНА, 4. ДЖЕРЕЛО (origin,
  КОНСЕРВУВАТИ, 4. ОБЕРІГАТИ, 5.
                                                       source), 5. ЕЛЕМЕНТ, 6. НОРМА.
  ОХОРОНЯТИ.
                                                    print see 1. друкувати, 2. відбиток, 3. ДРУК, 4.
presidency see 1. президентство, 2. головування.
                                                       шрифт.
president see 1. президент, 2. голова (head), 3.
                                                    printer see друкар.
  ректор.
                                                    printing see 1. друк, 2. ДРУКУВАННЯ, 3.
presidential see президентський.
                                                       роздрук, 4. тираж.
press see 1. прес, 2. преса, 3. тіснити, 4. тиснути,
                                                    prior see 1. попередній, 2. КОЛИШНІЙ, 3.
  5. друкарня, 6. наполягати, 7. штампувати, 8.
                                                       ПРІОР.
  утруднювати, 9. гладити, 10. реквізувати, 11.
                                                    priority see 1. пріоритет, 2. старшинство.
  реквізиція, 12. ПОСПІХ, 13. КВАПИТИ, 14.
                                                    prison see 1. в'язниця, 2. тюрма.
  ДАВИТИ, 15. ПРАСУВАТИ (iron), 16.
                                                    prisoner see 1. в'язень, 2. ПІДСУДНИЙ, 3.
  відбиток, 17. видавлювати, 18. ДРУК.
                                                       ПОЛОНЕНИЙ, 4. АРЕШТОВАНИЙ.
pressing see 1. стиск, 2. стиснення, 3.
                                                    privacy see 1. секретність, 2. самота, 3.
  ПРЕСУВАННЯ, 4. НЕВІДКЛАДНИЙ, 5.
                                                       самотність, 4. тайна, 5. усамітнення.
  НАТИСНЕННЯ.
                                                    private see 1. приватний, 2. рядовий, 3. секретний,
pressure see 1. тиск, 2. ВПЛИВ, 3. гніт, 4.
                                                       4. особистий, 5. КОНФІДЕНЦІЙНИЙ, 6.
  НАТИСК, 5. тиснення, 6. ВІДБИТОК.
prestige see престиж.
                                                    privilege see 1. привілей, 2. ПЕРЕВАГА.
presumably see мабуть.
```

```
prize see 1. приз, 2. виграш, 3. НАГОРОДА, 4.
  ПРЕМІЯ, 5. трофей.
probability see 1. ЙМОВІРНІСТЬ, 2. імовірність,
  3. ПРАВДОПОДІБНІСТЬ.
probable see 1. імовірний, 2. можливий, 3.
  правдоподібний, 4. вірогідний.
probably see 1. можливо, 2. МАБУТЬ.
probation see 1. випробування, 2. іспит.
probe see 1. зонд, 2. зондувати, 3.
  ЗОНДУВАННЯ.
problem see 1. проблема, 2. задача, 3.
  ЗАВДАННЯ.
problematic see проблематичний.
procedure see процедура.
proceed see 1. продовжувати, 2. виходити, 3.
  відбуватися. 4. відновлювати. 5. ДІЯТИ. 6.
  ПЕРЕХОДИТИ.
proceedings see 1. судочинство, 2. ПРАЦІ.
proceeds see 1. прибуток, 2. виторг.
process see 1. процес, 2. ОБРОБЛЯТИ, 3. рух, 4.
processing see 1. ОБРОБКА, 2. стерилізація, 3.
  технологія.
procession see процесія.
processor see ПРОЦЕСОР.
produce see 1. виробляти, 2. продукція, 3.
  ПРОДУКТ, 4. ПРОДУКУВАТИ, 5.
  ПРЕД'ЯВЛЯТИ, 6. ДАВАТИ, 7. випускати, 8.
  виробити.
producer see 1. виробник, 2. ПРОДЮСЕР.
product see 1. виріб, 2. продукт, 3. ПРОДУКЦІЯ,
  4. результат.
production see 1. виробництво, 2. видобуток, 3.
  виріб, 4. ПОСТАНОВКА, 5. ПРЕД'ЯВЛЕННЯ,
  6. ПРОДУКТИВНІСТЬ, 7. ПРОДУКЦІЯ, 8.
  виготовлення.
productive see 1. продуктивний, 2. родючий.
productivity see продуктивність.
profession see 1. професія, 2. фах, 3.
  віросповідання, 4. ОБІТНИЦЯ.
professional see 1. професійний, 2. професіонал,
  фаховий.
professionally see професіонально.
professor see 1. професор, 2. ВИКЛАДАЧ.
profile see 1. профіль, 2. контур, 3. обрис.
profit see 1. користь, 2. вигода, 3. користуватися,
  4. прибуток, 5. скористатися.
profitability see прибутковість.
profitable see 1. корисний, 2. прибутковий, 3.
   вигідний, 4. рентабельний, 5. сприятливий.
profound see 1. глибокий, 2. проникливий, 3.
  глибина.
profoundly see глибоко.
program see 1. програма, 2. програмувати.
programme see 1. програма, 2. план.
```

```
progress see 1. розвиток, 2. прогрес, 3.
  прогресувати, 4. хід, 5. успіх, 6.
  удосконалюватися, 7. ПРОСУВАТИСЯ, 8.
  ДОСЯГНЕННЯ, 9. поступ, 10. розвиватися.
progression see 1. просування, 2.
  ПОСЛІДОВНІСТЬ, 3. рух.
progressive see 1. поступовий, 2. прогресивний, 3.
  ПОСТУПАЛЬНИЙ, 4. ПЕРЕДОВИЙ, 5.
  ПРОГРЕСУЮЧИЙ.
prohibition see заборона.
project see 1. проект, 2. HAMIP (intent, intention),
  ПЛАН, 4. ПЛАНУВАТИ, 5.
  ПРОЕКТУВАТИ.
projection see 1. проект, 2. ПРОЕКТУВАННЯ, 3.
   ПРОЕКЦІЯ, 4. КИДАННЯ, 5. виступ.
proliferation see 1. розмноження, 2.
  поширення.
prominence see 1. випуклість, 2. HEPIBHICTЬ, 3.
  ОПУКЛІСТЬ.
prominent see 1. видатний, 2. ОПУКЛИЙ, 3.
  рельєфний, 4. відомий, 5. випуклий.
promise see 1. обіцяти, 2. обіцянка, 3.
   ПЕРСПЕКТИВА.
promising see багатообіцяючий.
promote see 1. сприяти, 2. висувати, 3.
  ДОПОМАГАТИ, 4. ЗАСНОВУВАТИ, 5.
  ПРОСУВАТИ.
promoter see 1. ЗАСНОВНИК, 2. ЗАСТУПНИК,
  3. АНТРЕПРЕНЕР, 4. фундатор.
promotion see 1. сприяння, 2. ЗАОХОЧЕННЯ, 3.
  ЗАСНУВАННЯ, 4. ПІДБУРЮВАННЯ, 5.
  ПРОСУВАННЯ.
promptly see 1. швидко, 2. НЕГАЙНО
   (immediately).
prone see 1. схильний, 2. ПОХИЛИЙ.
pronunciation see 1. вимова, 2. вимовляння.
proof see 1. доказ, 2. випробування, 3. довід, 4.
  НЕПРОНИКНИЙ, 5. ПРОБІРКА.
propaganda see пропаганда.
proper see 1. властивий, 2. власний, 3.
  правильний, 4. пристойний, 5. відповідний
  (appropriate), 6. підхожий, 7. НАЛЕЖНИЙ.
properly see 1. власне, 2. гарненько, 3. належно,
  4. ПРАВИЛЬНО.
property see 1. майно, 2. власність, 3. якість, 4.
  МАЄТОК, 5. властивість.
proportion see 1. пропорція, 2.
  ПРОПОРЦІЙНІСТЬ, 3. ДОЗУВАТИ.
proportional see 1. ПРОПОРЦІЙНИЙ, 2.
   ПРОПОРЦІОНАЛЬНИЙ.
proposal see 1. пропозиція, 2. ПЛАН, 3.
  ПРОПОНУВАННЯ.
propose see 1. пропонувати, 2. ПРИПУСКАТИ.
proposition see 1. пропозиція, 2. план, 3.
   ТВЕРДЖЕННЯ.
proprietor see 1. власник, 2. господар.
```

prose see проза. prosecution see 1. ведення, 2. ОБВИНУВАЧЕННЯ. prospect see перспектива. prospective see 1. можливий, 2. МАЙБУТНІЙ. prosperity see 1. добробут, 2. процвітання, 3. успіх. prosperous see 1. процвітаючий, 2. вдалий, 3. ЗАМОЖНИЙ, 4. сприятливий, 5. успішний. protect see 1. захищати, 2. охороняти, 3. ЗАХИСТИТИ. protected see ЗАХИЩЕНИЙ. protection see 1. захист, 2. охорона, 3. ЗАСТУПНИЦТВО, 4. перепустка, 5. ПРОТЕКЦІОНІЗМ. protective see протекційний. protein see протеїн. protest see 1. протестувати, 2. протест, 3. заперечення, 4. ОПРОТЕСТОВУВАТИ, 5. ОПРОТЕСТУВАННЯ. protocol see 1. протокол, 2. ПРОТОКОЛЮВАТИ. prototype see ПРОТОТИП. proud see 1. гордий, 2. гордовитий, 3. величний, 3АРОЗУМІЛИЙ. proudly see гордо. prove see 1. доводити, 2. доказувати, 3. ЗАСВІДЧУВАТИ, 4. ПРОБУВАТИ, 5. ДОКАЗАТИ, 6. виявлятися, 7. перевіряти. provide see 1. забезпечувати, 2. передбачати, 3. постачати, 4. ДАВАТИ, 5. ЗАГОТОВЛЯТИ, 6. ЗАПАСАТИ. province see 1. провінція, 2. ОБЛАСТЬ, 3. галузь. provincial see 1. ПРОВІНШЙНИЙ. 2. ПРОВІНШАЛЬНИЙ. provision see 1. постачання, 2. ЗАБЕЗПЕЧЕННЯ, 3. ЗАГОТІВЛЯ, 4. ЗАСТЕРЕЖЕННЯ, 5. положення. provisional see 1. тимчасовий, 2. умовний. proximity see близькість. psychiatric see психіатричний. psychological see психологічний. psychologist see психолог. psychology see психологія. **pub** see 1. трактир, 2. ШИНОК. public see 1. громадський, 2. публічний, 3. суспільний, 4. відкритий (open), 5. НАРОД, 6. прилюдний, 7. ПУБЛІКА. publication see 1. видання, 2. ОПУБЛІКУВАННЯ, 3. ПУБЛІКАЦІЯ, 4. ОГОЛОШЕННЯ. publicity see 1. гласність, 2. популярність, 3. ПУБЛІЧНІСТЬ, 4. РЕКЛАМА. publicly see публічно. publish see 1. видавати, 2. ОПУБЛІКУВАТИ, 3. ПУБЛІКУВАТИ, 4. ДРУКУВАТИСЯ. publisher see видавець. publishing see видавничий.

pudding see пудинг. pull see 1. тяга, 2. полоти, 3. РОЗТЯГУВАТИ, 4. СМИКАТИ, 5. ТЯГНУТИ, 6. тягти. pulse see 1. пульс, 2. біб, 3. ПУЛЬСУВАТИ, 4. ПУЛЬСАЦІЯ, 5. ПОЧУТТЯ, 6. імпульс, 7. вібрація, 8. биття, 9. битися, 10. вібрувати. **ритр** see **1**. насос, **2**. помпа, **3**. НАГНІТАТИ. punch see 1. штамп, 2. штемпель, 3. штампувати, 4. ЕНЕРГІЯ, 5. КОМПОСТЕР, 6. ПУНШ. punishment see 1. кара, 2. покарання. pupil see 1. учень, 2. школяр. purchase see 1. купувати (buy), 2. покупка, 3. набувати, 4. купування, 5. КУПИТИ, 6. вартість (value), 7. ПРИДБАННЯ, 8. ПРИДБАТИ, 9. КУПІВЛЯ. purchaser see покупець (buyer). pure see 1. чистий, 2. бездоганний, 3. цілковитий, 4. виразний. 5. чистокровний. 6. НЕПОРОЧНИЙ. purity see 1. чистота, 2. НЕПОРОЧНІСТЬ. purple see 1. пурпурний, 2. пурпур, 3. багровіти, 4. багряний, 5. фіалковий. **purpose** see 1. мета, 2. намір (intent, intention), 3. ціль, 4. результат. purse see 1. гаманець, 2. МАТНЯ. pursue see 1. переслідувати, 2. гнатися, 3. ЗАЙМАТИСЯ, 4. ПРОДОВЖУВАТИ. pursuit see 1. переслідування, 2. гонитва, 3. ЗАНЯТТЯ. **push** see 1. штовхати, 2. поштовх, 3. удар, 4. штовхнути, 5. штовхання, 6. ПРОСУВАТИ, 7. висувати, 8. спонукання, 9. НАТИСК. pushing see 1. ініціативний, 2. НАПОРИСТИЙ, 3. ПІДПРИЄМЛИВИЙ, 4. штовхання. put see 1. класти, 2. ставити, 3. покласти, 4. спрямовувати, 5. саджати, 6. ПРОПОНУВАТИ. 7. ПОМІШАТИ. 8. НАКЛАДАТИ, 9. викладати, 10. буцатися, 11. включати. pyramid see піраміда.

# Q

qualification see 1. ЗАСТЕРЕЖЕННЯ, 2. ОБМЕЖЕННЯ, 3. КВАЛІФІКАЦІЯ. qualified see 1. КОМПЕТЕНТНИЙ, 2. ОБМЕЖЕНИЙ, 3. ПІДХОЖИЙ. qualify see 1. визначати, 2. НАВЧАТИ (teach), 3. НАЗИВАТИ. quality see 1. якість, 2. властивість, 3. сорт. quantitative see кількісний. quantity see 1. кількість, 2. величина. quantum see 1. квант, 2. сума, 3. частина.

**quarry** *see* **1**. кар'єр, **2**. ритися, **3**. видобувати, **4**. ЗДОБИЧ, **5**. каменярня.

quarter see 1. чверть, 2. квартал.

queen see королева.

quest see розшук.

**question** *see* **1**. питання, **2**. ДОПИТУВАТИ, **3**. ЗАПИТАННЯ, **4**. проблема.

questionnaire see анкета.

queue see 1. черга, 2. коса.

**quick** *see* 1. швидкий, 2. кмітливий, 3. швидко, 4. скорий, 5. бистрий, 6. гострий.

quickly see 1. швидко, 2. хутко.

quiet see 1. спокійний, 2. тихий, 3. тиша (silence),4. скромний, 5. спокій, 6. НЕЯСКРАВИЙ, 7.ЗАСПОКОЮВАТИ.

quietly see 1. спокійно, 2. тихо.

**quite** *see* **1**. цілком, **2**. абсолютно, **3**. ДІЙСНО, **4**. ЗОВСІМ, **5**. ПОВНІСТЮ.

quota see 1. квота, 2. частка.

**quotation** *see* **1**. цитата, **2**. ЦИТУВАННЯ, **3**. ЦІНА, **4**. КОТИРУВАННЯ.

quote see 1. цитувати, 2. цитата, 3. розцінювати.

## R

rabbit see 1. кролик, 2. кріль, 3. заєць.

**race** *see* **1**. раса, **2**. рід, **3**. расовий, **4**. перегони, **5**. ПОГОНЯ, **6**. ПЛЕМ'Я.

racial see расовий.

racism see расизм.

racist see pacuct.

rack see 1. вішалка, 2. полиця (shelf), 3. СТЕЛАЖ, 4. ШТАТИВ, 5. РЕШІТКА, 6. підставка, 7. ГОДІВНИЦЯ.

radar see 1. радар, 2. радіолокатор, 3. радіолокація.

radiation see 1. випромінювання, 2. ОПРОМІНЮВАННЯ, 3. сяяння.

radical see 1. радикальний, 2. КОРІННИЙ, 3. КОРІНЬ, 4. радикал.

radio see радіо.

radioactive see радіоактивний.

radius see 1. радіус, 2. лімб, 3. спиця.

rage see 1. лютувати, 2. лють.

ragged see 1. ДРАНИЙ, 2. НЕРІВНИЙ, 3. ОБІРВАНИЙ.

raid see 1. рейд, 2. НАЛІТ.

rail see 1. рейка, 2. поруччя, 3. ПОПЕРЕЧКА, 4. ПЕРИЛА, 5. відгороджувати, 6. ОГОРОЖА. railway see залізниця.

rain see дощ.

raise see 1. піднімати, 2. підняти, 3. ПІДВИЩУВАТИ, 4. виховати, 5. виховувати, 6. ПІДЙОМ.

rally see 1. ЗБИРАТИСЯ, 2. ЗГУРТОВАНІСТЬ, 3. З'ЇЗД, 4. МІТИНГ, 5. ОБ'ЄДНАННЯ.

ram see 1. баран, 2. ОВЕН, 3. ЗАБИВАТИ.

random see 1. випадковий, 2. ДОВІЛЬНИЙ.

range see 1. ДІАПАЗОН, 2. ряд, 3. серія, 4. сфера.

rank see 1. ряд, 2. звання, 3. розкішний, 4. ОГИДНИЙ, 5. ранг, 6. КАТЕГОРІЯ, 7. ЗАРОСЛИЙ, 8. буйний, 9. шикуватися, 10. КЛАСИФІКУВАТИ.

rape see ЗГВАЛТУВАННЯ.

**rapid** see 1. швидкий (quick), 2. бистрий, 3. скорий.

rare see 1. рідкий, 2. рідкісний.

rarely see 1. винятково, 2. рідко.

rat see 1. пацюк, 2. щур, 3. ЗРАДНИК.

rate see 1. норма, 2. ставка, 3. тариф, 4. оцінювати, 5. відсоток, 6. сорт, 7. встановлювати, 8. швидкість (speed), 9. цінувати, 10. ціна, 11. розряд, 12. вважати, 13. вважатися, 14. визначати, 15. КУРС, 16. КОЕФІЦІЄНТ, 17. КЛАС, 18. ступінь.

rather see 1. краще, 2. швидше, 3. ПЕРЕВАЖНО, 4. вірніше, 5. ДОСИТЬ.

ratio see 1. відношення, 2. ПРОПОРЦІЯ, 3. співвідношення.

**rational** see 1. раціональний, 2. розумний (intelligent).

rationality see раціональність.

raw see 1. необроблений, 2. сирий, 3. вогкий.

ray see 1. промінь, 2. ОПРОМІНЮВАТИ, 3. ВИПРОМІНЮВАТИСЯ, 4. ВИПРОМІНЮВАТИ, 5. Проблиск.

re see pe.

reach see 1. досягати, 2. діставати, 3. СЯГАТИ, 4. СЯГНУТИ, 5. передавати, 6. ДОТЯГУВАТИСЯ, 7. ДОСЯЖНІСТЬ, 8. ДОСЯГТИ, 9. ДОХОДИТИ.

react see 1. реагувати, 2. впливати, 3. ПРОТИДІЯТИ.

reaction see 1. реакція, 2. вплив, 3. ПРОТИДІЯ. reactor see реактор.

**read** *see* **1**. читати, **2**. прочитати, **3**. ПРОЧИТАНИЙ.

**reader** *see* **1**. читач, **2**. читець, **3**. хрестоматія, **4**. лектор.

readily see 1. легко, 2. охоче, 3. ЗАЛЮБКИ, 4.

readiness see 1. готовність, 2. спритність.

reading see 1. читання, 2. тлумачення.

ready see 1. готовий, 2. ЗГОДНИЙ.

real see 1. справжній, 2. дійсний (valid), 3. істинний, 4. непідробний, 5. реальний, 6. НАТУРАЛЬНИЙ, 7. щирий.

realism see реалізм. realistic see реалістичний. reality see 1. реальність, 2. істинність, 3. ДІЙСНІСТЬ. realization see 1. виконання, 2. ЗДІЙСНЕННЯ, 3. ПРОДАЖ (sale), 4. реалізація, 5. усвідомлення. realize see 1. здійснювати, 2. продавати (sell), 3. реалізувати, 4. виконувати, 5. ЗДІЙСНИТИ. really see 1. справді, 2. дійсно, 3. НАСПРАВДІ. realm see 1. галузь, 2. королівство, 3. сфера. rear see 1. тил, 2. задній, 3. розводити, 4. тильний, 5. КУЛЬТИВУВАТИ, 6. вирощувати, 7. ПІДНІМАТИ. reason see 1. підстава, 2. причина, 3. розум (mind), **4**. APГУМЕНТ, **5**. міркувати, **6**. ОБМІРКОВУВАТИ, 7. переконувати, 8. пояснення, 9. ПРИВІД. reasonable see 1. розумний (intelligent), 2. ПРИЙНЯТНИЙ, 3. розсудливий. reasoning see MIРКУВАННЯ. reassurance see ЗАПЕВНЕННЯ. reassure see ЗАСПОКОЮВАТИ. rebel see 1. бунтар, 2. повставати, 3. повстанець, 4. бунтувати, 5. ЗАКОЛОТНИК, 6. повстанський. rebellion see 1. повстання, 2. бунт, 3. опір. recall see 1. відкликання, 2. відкликати, 3. ЗГАЛАТИ. receipt see 1. квитанція, 2. рецепт, 3. ОДЕРЖАННЯ. receive see 1. одержувати, 2. отримувати, 3. приймати (accept), 4. ПРИЙНЯТИ, 5. сприймати, 6. ОДЕРЖАТИ. receiver see 1. отримувач, 2. ПРИЙМАЧ, 3. РАДІОПРИЙМАЧ, 4. ОДЕРЖУВАЧ. receiving see ОТРИМАННЯ. recent see 1. недавній, 2. НЕЩОДАВНІЙ. recently see 1. НЕДАВНО, 2. НЕЩОДАВНО. reception see 1. зустріч, 2. сприймання, 3. приймання, 4. ОДЕРЖАННЯ. receptor see рецептор. recession see 1. відхід, 2. ЗАГЛИБЛЕННЯ. recipe see 1. засіб, 2. рецепт. reckless see нерозсудливий. reckon see 1. рахувати (count), 2. ПОКЛАДАТИСЯ, 3. ПІДРАХОВУВАТИ, 4. НАРАХОВУВАТИ. recognition see 1. визнання, 2. розпізнавання, 3. упізнавання. recognize see 1. визнавати, 2. визнати, 3. впізнавати, 4. ПІЗНАВАТИ, 5.

ПРИЗНАВАТИ, 6. усвідомлювати.

ПРЕДСТАВЛЯТИ, 4. висувати.

recommend see 1. рекомендувати, 2. радити, 3.

recommendation see 1. рекомендація, 2. ПОРАДА. reconciliation see 1. ПОГОДЖЕННЯ. 2. ПРИМИРЕННЯ, 3. узгодження. reconstruction see 1. відбудова, 2. відновлення, 3. ПЕРЕБУДОВА, 4. реконструкція. record see 1. запис, 2. рекорд, 3. реєструвати, 4. записувати, 5. звукозапис, 6. ПРОТОКОЛ, 7. реєстрація, 8. ЗВІТ. recorder see peecrpatop. recording see 1. ЗАПИС, 2. реєстрація. recover see 1. відновлювати, 2. НАДОЛУЖУВАТИ, 3. видужувати. recovery see 1. видужання, 2. відновлення, 3. відшкодування, 4. одужання. recreation see відпочинок. recruit see 1. новобранець, 2. вербувати, 3. рекрут. recruitment see поповнення. rectangular see прямокутний. recurrence see 1. ПОВЕРНЕННЯ, 2. ПОВТОРЕННЯ, 3. рецидив. recurrent see 1. періодичний, 2. рецидивний. red see 1. червоний, 2. рум'яний. redemption see 1. ПОВЕРНЕННЯ, 2. виконання, 3. викуп, 4. врятування. reduce see 1. худнути, 2. ПОСЛАБЛЮВАТИ, 3. зменшувати, 4. ЗНИЖУВАТИ, 5. перетворювати. reduced see ЗМЕНШЕНИЙ. reduction see 1. зниження, 2. ПЕРЕТВОРЕННЯ. redundancy see 1. надмірність, 2. НАДЛИШОК. redundant see 1. ЗАЙВИЙ, 2. НАДМІРНИЙ. reed see Очерет. refer see 1. посилатися, 2. спрямовувати, 3. ПРИПИСУВАТИ, 4. ПОСИЛАТИ, 5. ЗГАДУВАТИ, 6. відноситись, 7. ЗВЕРТАТИСЯ. referee see 1. рефері, 2. АРБІТР, 3. суддя. reference see 1. посилання, 2. довідка, 3. виноска, референція, 5. ЗАСЛАННЯ. referendum see референдум. reflect see 1. відбивати, 2. відображати, 3. міркувати, 4. віддзеркалювати. reflection see 1. міркування, 2. відображення, 3. відблиск, 4. відбиття, 5. відбиток. reform see 1. реформа, 2. реформувати, 3. виправлятися, 4. ПОЛІПШЕННЯ, 5. виправлення. refuge see притулок. refugee see 1. біженець, 2. утікач. refusal see відмова. refuse see 1. відмовляти, 2. ПОКИДЬКИ, 3. відмовити, 4. відмовлятися. regard see 1. увага, 2. ПОВАГА, 3. поважати (respect).

regeneration see регенерація.

regime see режим.

regiment see полк.

**region** *see* **1**. район, **2**. область, **3**. сфера, **4**. ОКРУГА, **5**. КРАЇНА, **6**. регіон.

**regional** see 1. регіональний, 2. ОБЛАСНИЙ, 3. районний.

register see 1. реєструватися, 2. ЗАПИС, 3. реєстр, 4. реєструвати.

registered see 1. іменний, 2. ЗАРЕЄСТРОВАНИЙ. registration see реєстрація.

regression see регресія.

regret see 1. жаль, 2. ЖАЛКУВАТИ, 3. розкаюватися.

regular see 1. регулярний, 2. правильний.

regularly see регулярно.

regulate see регулювати.

regulation see регулювання.

rehabilitation see 1. реабілітація, 2. відбудова.

**rehearsal** *see* **1**. репетиція, **2**. ПОВТОРЕННЯ, **3**. ПЕРЕКАЗ.

reign see 1. панувати, 2. ПАНУВАННЯ, 3. царювання, 4. царювати.

reinforce see 1. ПІДСИЛЮВАТИ, 2. ПОСИЛЮВАТИ.

reject see 1. відкидати, 2. відкинути, 3. брак, 4. відхиляти.

rejection see 1. відмова (refusal), 2. відхилення.

relate see 1. розповідати, 2. розповісти.

related see 1. пов'язаний, 2. споріднений.

**relation** *see* **1**. відношення, **2**. родич, **3**. ОПОВІДАННЯ.

relational see відносний.

relationship see ЗВ'ЯЗОК.

**relative** *see* **1**. відносний, **2**. родич, **3**. відповідний (арргоргіаte), **4**. умовний.

relax see 1. розслаблятися, 2. ЗМЕНШУВАТИ, 3. ОСЛАБЛЯТИ.

relaxation see 1. розслаблення, 2.

ПОМ'ЯКШЕННЯ, 3. ОСЛАБЛЕННЯ, 4. відпочинок, 5. релаксація.

release see 1. звільнення, 2. звільняти, 3. відпускати.

relevance see 1. доречність, 2. релевантність.

relevant see 1. доречний, 2. відповідний (арргоргіаtе), 3. релевантний.

reliability see 1. надійність, 2. вірогідність.

reliable see надійний.

**reliance** *see* **1**. ДОВІРА, **2**. ДОВІР'Я, **3**. ОПОРА, **4**. упевненість.

relief see 1. рельєф, 2. ДОПОМОГА (help), 3. ПОЛЕГШЕННЯ, 4. рельєфність, 5. різноманітність.

relieve see 1. полегшувати, 2. ЗАСПОКОЮВАТИ. religion see 1. релігія, 2. КУЛЬТ, 3. чернецтво.

religious see 1. релігійний, 2. ПОБОЖНИЙ.

reluctance see небажання.

reluctant see 1. вимушений, 2. НЕОХОЧИЙ.

reluctantly see неохоче.

rely see покладатися.

remain see залишатися.

remainder see 1. залишок, 2. решта, 3. ОСТАЧА.

remains see 1. залишок, 2. ОСТАНКИ.

remark see 1. зауваження, 2. помічати, 3. ЗАУВАЖУВАТИ, 4. ПРИМІТКА, 5. спостереження.

remarkable see 1. видатний, 2. визначний, 3. чудовий (wonderful), 4. ДИВОВИЖНИЙ.

remarkably see чудово.

**remedy** *see* **1**. ліки, **2**. виправляти (correct), **3**. 3ACIБ.

remember see 1. згадувати, 2. пам'ятати, 3. ПРИГАДУВАТИ, 4. ЗАПАМ'ЯТАТИ, 5. ЗГАДАТИ, 6. ПРИГАДАТИ.

remind see 1. нагадувати, 2. згадувати.

reminder see нагадування.

**remote** *see* **1**. віддалений, **2**. відлюдний, **3**. ДАЛЬНІЙ.

**removal** *see* **1**. переміщення, **2**. ПЕРЕЇЗД, **3**. усунення.

remove see пересувати.

renaissance see 1. ренесанс, 2. відродження.

render see 1. платити, 2. оплата.

**renewal** *see* **1**. відновлення, **2**. ОНОВЛЕННЯ, **3**. ПОПОВНЕННЯ.

rent see 1. орендувати, 2. рента, 3. НАЙМАТИ, 4. НАЙНЯТИ, 5. ПРОКАТ.

repair see 1. ремонт, 2. лагодження, 3. лагодити, 4. виправляти (correct), 5. ремонтувати, 6. відновлювати.

**repay** *see* 1. відплачувати, 2. відшкодовувати, 3. ПОВЕРТАТИ.

**repayment** *see* **1**. відшкодування, **2**. ОПЛАТА. **repeat** *see* **1**. повторювати, **2**.

ПОВТОРЮВАТИСЯ, 3. ПОВТОРИТИ.

repeatedly see повторно.

repertoire see репертуар.

repetition see повторення.

**replace** *see* **1**. заміняти, **2**. ЗАМІНИТИ, **3**. ЗАМІНЮВАТИ, **4**. ЗАМІЩАТИ, **5**. ПОВЕРТАТИ.

replacement see 1. заміна, 2. ЗАМІЩЕННЯ. reply see 1. відповідати, 2. відповідь, 3. відповісти.

**report** *see* **1**. рапорт, **2**. доповідати, **3**. доповідь, **4**. звіт, **5**. повідомляти, **6**. ДОПОВІСТИ, **7**. ЗВІТУВАТИ, **8**. ПОВІДОМЛЕННЯ.

reporter see 1. репортер, 2.

РАДІОКОМЕНТАТОР, 3. доповідач.

**represent** *see* **1**. зображати, **2**. представляти, **3**. ЗОБРАЗИТИ, **4**. репрезентувати.

representation see 1. зображення, 2. ПОДАННЯ, 3. ПРЕДСТАВНИЦТВО, 4. твердження. representative see 1. представник, 2. представницький, 3. характерний, 4. типовий. repression see 1. репресія, 2. ПРИДУШЕННЯ, 3. стримування. reproduction see 1. відтворення, 2. репродукція, 3. розмноження. reproductive see відтворювальний. republic see республіка. republican see республіканський. reputation see репутація. request see 1. просити, 2. прохання, 3. запит, 4. просьба. require see 1. вимагати, 2. потребувати. required see необхідний. requirement see 1. вимога, 2. потреба, 3. вимагання rescue see 1. рятувати, 2. РЯТУВАННЯ, 3. визволення, 4. порятунок. research see 1. дослідження, 2. ДОСЛІДЖУВАТИ. researcher see дослідник. resemblance see 1. схожість, 2. ПОДІБНІСТЬ. resentment see обурення. reservation see 1. РЕЗЕРВАЦІЯ, 2. РЕЗЕРВУВАННЯ, 3. ЗАСТЕРЕЖЕННЯ, 4. збереження. reserve see 1. запас, 2. запасати, 3. резерв, 4. запасний, 5. резервувати. reserved see 1. ЗАПАСНИЙ, 2. ЗАРЕЗЕРВОВАНИЙ, 3. резервний, 4. стриманий. reservoir see 1. резервуар, 2. скарбниця, 3. басейн, 4. водосховище. residence see 1. МІСЦЕПЕРЕБУВАННЯ, 2. ОСЕЛЯ, 3. ПРОЖИВАННЯ, 4. резиденція. resident see 1. мешканець, 2. резидент. residential see житловий. residual see 1. остача, 2. залишковий. resign see відмовлятися. resignation see 1. відставка, 2. покірність. resigned see відставний. resist see 1. опиратися, 2. ПРОТИСТОЯТИ. resistance see 1. опір, 2. ПРОТИДІЯ. resistant see стійкий. resolution see 1. резолюція, 2. рішення, 3. рішучість, 4. вирішення, 5. твердість.

resolve see 1. вирішувати, 2. вирішити.

ресурс, 4. ресурси.

шанувати.

**resolved** *see* **1**. рішучий, **2**. урегульований. **resource** *see* **1**. ЗАСІБ, **2**. МОЖЛИВІСТЬ, **3**.

respect see 1. поважати, 2. повага, 3. відношення, 4. ДОДЕРЖУВАТИ, 5. ПОШАНА, 6.

respectable see 1. шановний, 2. ЗНАЧНИЙ, 3. ПОРЯДНИЙ, 4. респектабельний. respectively see відповідно. respiratory see дихальний. respond see 1. відповідати, 2. реагувати, 3. відповісти. response see 1. відгук, 2. відповідь, 3. реакція. responsibility see 1. відповідальність, 2. ПІДОПІЧНИЙ. responsible see 1. відповідальний, 2. НАДІЙНИЙ. responsive see 1. чутливий, 2. чуйний. rest see 1. відпочивати. 2. відпочинок. 3. решта. 4. спокій, 5. відпочити, 6. ЗАЛИШОК, 7. НЕРУХОМІСТЬ, 8. ОПОРА, 9. ПЕРЕРВА, 10. сон, 11. спиратися. restaurant see ресторан. restless see 1. НЕВГАМОВНИЙ, 2. НЕСПОКІЙНИЙ, 3. тривожний. restoration see 1. реставрація, 2. відновлення. restore see 1. відновлювати, 2. реставрувати, 3. відбудовувати, 4. відбудувати, 5. ПОВЕРТАТИ. restraint see 1. стриманість, 2. ОБМЕЖЕННЯ, 3. самовладання. restrict see обмежувати. restriction see обмеження. result see 1. наслідок (outcome), 2. результат. resume see 1. ОДЕРЖУВАТИ, 2. ПОНОВЛЮВАТИ, 3. ПРОДОВЖУВАТИ, 4. резюме. retail see роздрібний. retain see 1. зберігати, 2. ЗДЕРЖУВАТИ, 3. ПАМ'ЯТАТИ, 4. утримувати. retention see затримка. retired see відставний. retirement see відставка. retreat see 1. відступ, 2. відступати, 3. відійти, 4. відступити, 5. відходити. retrieval see 1. виправлення, 2. ПОВЕРНЕННЯ. retrospective see ретроспективний. return see 1. повертати, 2. вертати, 3. дохід, 4. повернення, 5. ПОВЕРТАТИСЯ, 6. ПРИБУТОК, 7. ПОВЕРНУТИ, 8. віддати, 9. віддавати, 10. вертатися, 11. рапорт. rev see Оберт. reveal see 1. відкривати, 2. викривати, 3. виявляти, 4. ПОКАЗУВАТИ, 5. свідчити. revelation see 1. відкриття, 2. ОДКРОВЕННЯ. revenge see 1. помста, 2. мстити, 3. реванш, 4. мститися. revenue see 1. дохід, 2. ПРИБУТОК. reverend see 1. преподобний, 2. шановний. reverse see 1. зворотний, 2. протилежний, 3. перевертати, 4. протилежність. review see 1. огляд, 2. рецензія, 3. ПЕРЕГЛЯДАТИ, 4. ПЕРЕГЛЯД, 5.

```
ПЕРЕВІРЯТИ, 6. ОГЛЯДАТИ, 7.
   ПЕРЕВІРКА.
revision see 1. перегляд, 2. ревізія, 3.
   ПЕРЕРОБКА.
revival see відродження.
revolt see 1. повстання, 2. ПОВСТАТИ.
revolution see 1. революція, 2. ПЕРЕВОРОТ.
revolutionary see 1. революційний, 2.
   ОБЕРТОВИЙ, 3. революціонер.
reward see 1. нагорода, 2. нагороджувати, 3.
   винагорода, 4. відплата, 5. НАГОРОДИТИ.
rhetoric see риторика.
rhythm see 1. ритм, 2. гармонія.
rhythmic see ритмічний.
ribbon see стрічка.
rice see pис.
rich see 1. багатий, 2. родючий, 3. цінний.
rid see ЗВІЛЬНЯТИ.
ride see 1. їхати, 2. ПРОГУЛЯНКА, 3.
   КАТАТИСЯ.
rider see 1. вершник, 2. НАЇЗНИК.
ridge see 1. вододіл, 2. КРАЙ, 3. хребет.
ridiculous see 1. сміховинний, 2. безглуздий
   (absurd), 3. СМІШНИЙ.
riding see їзда.
rifle see 1. гвинтівка, 2. рушниця.
right see 1. правий. 2. правильний. 3. право. 4.
   направо. 5. ПРАВИЛЬНІСТЬ. 6.
  ПРАВИЛЬНО, 7. ПРЯМИЙ, 8. справедливий,
   9. справедливо.
rightly see 1. правильно, 2. справедливо.
rigid see 1. жорсткий, 2. СУВОРИЙ, 3. СТІЙКИЙ.
rigorous see 1. суворий, 2. ретельний, 3. точний
  (exact).
rim see 1. ОБІД, 2. оправа.
ring see 1. кільце, 2. дзвонити, 3. коло (circle), 4.
   круг, 5. КАБЛУЧКА, 6. ДЗВЕНІТИ, 7.
   ОПРАВА, 8. перстень, 9. ринг.
ringing see 1. виклик, 2. ЗВУЧНИЙ.
riot see 1. бунт, 2. бунтувати, 3. ЗАКОЛОТ.
ripe see 1. зрілий, 2. спілий, 3. готовий, 4.
   ЗМУЖНІЛИЙ.
rise see 1. вставати, 2. сходити, 3.
   ЗБІЛЬШУВАТИСЯ, 4. ЗДІЙМАТИСЯ, 5.
   ПІДВИЩЕННЯ, 6. ПІДНІМАТИСЯ, 7. схід.
rising see 1. ВСТАВАННЯ, 2. підвищення.
risk see 1. ризик, 2. ризикувати, 3. риск.
risky see ризикований.
ritual see 1. ритуал, 2. ритуальний.
rival see 1. суперник, 2. конкурент, 3.
   КОНКУРУВАТИ.
river see 1. ріка, 2. річка, 3. ПОТІК.
road see 1. шлях (way), 2. дорога (way), 3. ПУТЬ,
   4. вулиця (street).
```

roar see 1. рев, 2. ревти, 3. регіт, 4. шум (noise).

```
rob see 1. грабувати, 2. ПОЗБАВЛЯТИ, 3.
   відбирати, 4. ОБКРАДАТИ.
robbery see 1. крадіжка, 2. пограбування.
robin see вільшанка.
robust see 1. дужий, 2. здоровий, 3. ясний, 4.
   важкий, 5. МІЦНИЙ, 6. сильний.
rock see 1. скеля, 2. трясти, 3. хитати, 4.
   заколисувати, 5. камінь, 6. КОЛИВАТИ, 7.
   ПОРОДА, 8. рок, 9. гойдати.
rocket see 1. ракета, 2. ЗЛІТАТИ.
rocky see 1. скелястий, 2. НЕПОХИТНИЙ.
rod see 1. скіпетр, 2. прут, 3. жезл, 4. лозина.
role see роль.
roll see 1. котити, 2. вертітися, 3. згорток, 4.
   СУВІЙ, 5. кругляк, 6. ПРОТОКОЛ, 7. РУЛОН,
   КЛУБОК, 9. вертіти, 10. булочка, 11.
   котитися.
romance see 1. перебільшувати, 2. романтика, 3.
   вигадувати, 4. РОМАН.
romantic see 1. романтик, 2. романтичний, 3.
   фантастичний.
roof see 1. дах, 2. ПОКРІВЛЯ, 3. ПРИТУЛОК
   (refuge).
room see 1. кімната, 2. місце, 3. ПРОСТІР.
root see 1. корінь, 2. впроваджувати, 3. основа, 4.
   родоначальник.
rope see 1. канат, 2. прив'язувати, 3. в'язка, 4.
   МОТУЗКА.
rose see 1. троянда, 2. рожа, 3. трояндовий.
rosemary see розмарин.
rotation see 1. обертання, 2. чергування.
rotten see 1. гнилий, 2. НЕМІЦНИЙ, 3.
   ПРОГНИЛИЙ.
rough see 1. грубий, 2. НЕРІВНИЙ, 3.
   ПРИБЛИЗНИЙ, 4. НЕОБРОБЛЕНИЙ.
roughly see 1. грубо, 2. НЕВВІЧЛИВО, 3.
   НЕРІВНО, 4. бурхливо.
round see 1. круглий, 2. навколо, 3. приблизний,
   коло (circle).округлювати.округлювати.
   ОКРУГЛЯТИ. 7. повний.
route see маршрут.
routine see 1. рутина, 2. шаблон.
rover see 1. блукач, 2. ПІРАТ.
row see 1. ряд, 2. веслування, 3. веслувати, 4.
   НИЗКА, 5. скандалити, 6. шум (noise).
roval see королівський.
rubber see 1. гума, 2. гумовий, 3. КАУЧУК, 4.
   МАСАЖИСТ, 5. шайба, 6. гумка.
rubbing see 1. натирання, 2. тертя.
rubbish see 1. мотлох, 2. ДУРНИЦЯ, 3. сміття.
rude see 1. грубий, 2. ПРИМІТИВНИЙ, 3.
   брутальний.
rug see 1. килим, 2. плед.
rule see 1. правило, 2. КЕРУВАТИ, 3. лінійка, 4.
ruler see 1. правитель, 2. лінійка.
```

**ruling** *see* **1**. правлячий, **2**. управління, **3**. ПОСТАНОВА.

rumour see чутка.

**run** see **1**. бігати, **2**. бігти, **3**. біг, **4**. ДІЯТИ, **5**. КЕРУВАТИ, **6**. рейс, **7**. хід, **8**. ходити (walk).

**runner** *see* **1**. бігун, **2**. інкасатор, **3**. рисак, **4**. ПОСИЛЬНИЙ.

running see 1. рух, 2. хід.

rural see сільський.

**rush** *see* **1**. кидатися, **2**. натиск, **3**. КВАПИТИ, **4**. КОМИШ, **5**. НАПРУЖЕННЯ, **6**. ОЧЕРЕТ.

ruthless see безжалісний.

# S

sack see 1. мішок, 2. сак, 3. лантух.

sacred see 1. святий, 2. священний, 3. НЕДОТОРКАНИЙ, 4. НЕДОТОРКАННИЙ.

**sacrifice** *see* **1**. жертва, **2**. ЖЕРТВУВАТИ, **3**. ЗБИТОК.

sad see 1. сумний, 2. тьмяний, 3. ЖУРЛИВИЙ, 4. ПЕЧАЛЬНИЙ, 5. ЗАЖУРЕНИЙ.

saddle see сідло.

sadly see cymno.

sadness see 1. cym, 2. cmytok.

safe see 1. безпечний, 2. надійний, 3.

холодильник, 4. благополучний, 5. сейф.

**safely** *see* **1**. безпечно, **2**. благополучно. **safety** *see* **1**. безпека, **2**. безпечність, **3**.

**atety** see 1. безпека, 2. безпечніс неушкодженість.

**sail** *see* **1**. вітрило, **2**. відпливати, **3**. парус, **4**. плавати.

saint see святий.

sake see КОРИСТЬ.

salad see салат.

salary see 1. ОКЛАД, 2. ЗАРПЛАТА.

sale see 1. продаж, 2. збут, 3. розпродаж.

salmon see лосось.

salon see 1. вітальня, 2. салон.

saloon see 1. салун, 2. бар (bar), 3. ЗАЛ, 4. салон. salt see сіль.

Sait see Cilib.

salvation see рятування.

**sample** *see* **1**. зразок, **2**. приклад, **3**. взірець, **4**. ПРОБА, **5**. ПРОБУВАТИ.

sanctuary see 1. притулок (refuge), 2. святилище. sand see пісок.

**sandwich** *see* **1**. бутерброд, **2**. сандвіч, **3**. сендвіч. **sandy** *see* **1**. Рудуватий, **2**. Піщаний.

satellite see 1. супутник, 2. сателіт.

satisfaction see 1. задоволення, 2. вдоволення.

satisfactorily see задовільно.

satisfactory see 1. задовільний, 2. ПРИЄМНИЙ, 3. ДОСТАТНІЙ.

satisfied see задоволений.

**satisfy** *see* **1**. задовольняти, **2**. переконувати, **3**. ЗАДОВОЛЬНИТИ, **4**. виконувати.

sauce see coyc.

sausage see 1. ковбаса, 2. сосиска.

save see 1. рятувати, 2. КРІМ, 3. спасати, 4. ЕКОНОМИТИ, 5. берегти, 6. ЗАОЩАДЖУВАТИ.

saving see 1. ЕКОНОМІЯ, 2. ЗБЕРЕЖЕННЯ, 3. ОЩАДЛИВИЙ.

savings see ЗАОЩАДЖЕННЯ.

saw see 1. ПИЛА, 2. ПИЛКА, 3. пиляти.

**say** *see* **1**. сказати, **2**. казати, **3**. говорити, **4**. висловлювати.

saying see 1. прислів'я, 2. ПРОГОЛОШЕННЯ, 3. приказка.

scale see 1. шкала, 2. ЗВАЖУВАТИ, 3. ЗВАЖУВАТИСЯ, 4. лущити, 5. МАСШТАБ, 6. НАКИП, 7. розмір.

scandal see 1. скандал, 2. ПЛІТКИ.

scarcely see 1. ледве, 2. насилу, 3. ледь.

scarlet see яскраво-червоний.

scenario see сценарій.

scene see 1. сцена, 2. видовище, 3. ДЕКОРАЦІЯ.

scenery see 1. ПЕЙЗАЖ, 2. ДЕКОРАЦІЇ.

scent see 1. запах, 2. НЮХ, 3. APOMAT.

sceptical see скептичний.

scepticism see скептицизм.

**schedule** *see* **1**. розклад, **2**. список, **3**. ПЕРЕЛІК, **4**. режим.

scheme see 1. ПЛАНУВАТИ, 2. система, 3. КОНСПЕКТ, 4. ЗАМИШЛЯТИ, 5. ПЛАН, 6. схема.

scholar see 1. вчений, 2. стипендіат, 3. учений, 4. філолог-класик.

**scholarship** *see* **1**. стипендія, **2**. вченість, **3**. ученість.

school see 1. школа, 2. шкільний, 3. КЛАС, 4. ПРИВЧАТИ, 5. НАВЧАННЯ, 6. ДИСЦИПЛІНУВАТИ, 7. НАПРЯМ.

science see наука.

scientific see науковий.

scientist see вчений.

scope see 1. MACШТАБ, 2. MEЖI.

score see 1. рахунок, 2. ЗАБОРГОВАНІСТЬ.

scrap see 1. шматочок. 2. шматок.

**scratch** *see* **1**. дряпати, **2**. подряпина, **3**. ДРЯПАТИСЯ.

screaming see сміховинний.

**screen** *see* **1**. екран, **2**. ЕКРАНІЗУВАТИ, **3**. ПРИКРИВАТИ, **4**. ширма.

screening see 1. МАСКУВАННЯ, 2. ПРОСПОВАННЯ.

script see 1. почерк, 2. рукопис, 3. сценарій.

sculpture see скульптура.

scum see 1. піна, 2. ПІНИТИСЯ.

sea see 1. море, 2. МОРСЬКИЙ, 3. хвиля.
seal see 1. печатка, 2. тюлень, 3. запечатувати, 4. печать, 5. пломба.

search see 1. шукати, 2. ПОШУК, 3. ОБШУК, 4. ДОСЛІДЖУВАТИ, 5. ОБШУКУВАТИ.

searching see 1. ДОПИТЛИВИЙ, 2. ПОШУК, 3. ПРОНИЗЛИВИЙ.

season see сезон.

seasonal see сезонний.

**seat** *see* **1**. сидіння, **2**. місце, **3**. уміщати, **4**. ПОСАДА.

second see 1. другий, 2. секунда, 3. МИТЬ, 4. ПІДТРИМУВАТИ, 5. ПОВТОРНИЙ, 6. ПО-ДРУГЕ, 7. ПОМІЧНИК, 8. ДОДАТКОВИЙ.

secondary see 1. другорядний, 2. ПОВТОРНИЙ, 3. помічник, 4. ДОДАТКОВИЙ, 5. ДОПОМІЖНИЙ, 6. ПІДЛЕГЛИЙ.

secondly see по-друге.

secrecy see 1. секретність, 2. таємниця.

secret see 1. секрет, 2. секретний, 3. таємний, 4. таємнийя

secretary see 1. секретар, 2. МІНІСТР.

secretion see секреція.

secretly see HEПОМІТНО.

**section** *see* **1**. відділ, **2**. секція, **3**. частина, **4**. відрізок, **5**. ПІДРОЗДІЛЯТИ, **6**. розріз, **7**. сегмент.

sector see 1. сектор, 2. ДІЛЯНКА.

secular see світський.

secure see 1. безпечний, 2. ЗАБЕЗПЕЧУВАТИ, 3. ЗАКРІПЛЯТИ. 4. спокійний.

**security** *see* **1**. безпека, **2**. надійність, **3**. упевненість, **4**. безпечність, **5**. гарантія.

sediment see осад.

see see 1. бачити, 2. ОГЛЯДАТИ, 3. спостерігати.

seed see 1. насіння, 2. сіяти, 3. ПОСІЯТИ.

seeing see бачення.

**seek** *see* **1**. шукати, **2**. НАМАГАТИСЯ, **3**. ПРОСИТИ.

seem see здаватися.

seemingly see ОЧЕВИДНО.

segment see сегмент.

seldom see рідко.

select see 1. вибирати, 2. ОБИРАТИ, 3. ОБРАНИЙ.

selection see 1. вибір, 2. відбір, 3. НАБІР.

selective see 1. відбірний, 2. селективний.

self see cam.

selfish see егоїстичний.

sell see 1. продавати, 2. продати, 3. ПРОДАВАТИСЯ.

seller see 1. продавець, 2. торговець.

semantic see семантичний.

seminar see семінар.

senate see 1. сенат, 2. рада.

send see 1. посилати, 2. ПЕРЕСЛАТИ, 3. ПОСЛАТИ, 4. відправляти.

senior see старший.

sensation see 1. сенсація, 2. відчуття.

**sense** *see* 1. відчувати, **2**. відчуття, **3**. сенс, **4**. значення, **5**. відчути, **6**. ПОЧУТТЯ, **7**. смисл, **8**. глузд.

**sensible** *see* **1**. відчутний, **2**. розсудливий, **3**. розумний (intelligent), **4**. чутливий.

**sensitive** *see* **1**. чутливий, **2**. чуткий, **3**. чуттєвий, **4**. уразливий, **5**. сприйнятливий, **6**. чуйний.

sensitivity see чутливість.

sensory see чутливий.

sentence see 1. речення, 2. ЗАСУДЖУВАТИ. sentiment see 1. почуття, 2. сентиментальність, 3. НАСТРІЙ.

sentimental see сентиментальний.

separate see 1. окремий, 2. відокремлювати, 3. відокремлюватися, 4. сепаратний, 5. ПОДІЛЯТИ, 6. відділяти, 7. відокремити. separately see окремо.

separation see 1. відокремлення, 2. розлука. sequence see 1. послідовність, 2. НАСЛІДОК (outcome).

sergeant see сержант.

**serial** *see* **1**. серіал, **2**. серійний, **3**. ПОРЯДКОВИЙ.

series *see* 1. серія, **2**. випуск, **3**. РЯД, **4**. СЕРІЇ. serious *see* 1. серйозний, **2**. важливий, **3**. НЕБЕЗПЕЧНИЙ.

seriously see серйозно.

seriousness see серйозність.

serum see сироватка.

servant see 1. слуга, 2. служитель, 3. службовець.

serve see 1. служити, 2. ОБСЛУГОВУВАТИ, 3. ПОДАЧА, 4. слугувати.

server see 1. ПІДНОС, 2. сервер.

service see 1. служба, 2. сервіз, 3.

ОБСЛУГОВУВАННЯ, **4**. ОБСЛУГОВУВАТИ. **serving** *see* **1**. ОБСЛУГОВУВАННЯ, **2**. ПОДАЧА, **3**. ПОРЦІЯ.

session see 1. засідання, 2. сеанс, 3. ЗБОРИ (meeting), 4. сесія.

set see 1. комплект, 2. ставити, 3. КЛАСТИ, 4. установлювати, 5. група (group), 6. НАБІР.

setting see 1. оправа, 2. оточення, 3. ПОСТАНОВКА.

settle see 1. вирішувати, 2. влаштовуватися, 3. ОСЕЛЯТИСЯ, 4. ОСІДАТИ.

settled see 1. сталий, 2. твердий, 3. ПОСТІЙНИЙ.

**settlement** *see* **1**. ПОСЕЛЕННЯ, **2**. селище, **3**. сплата, **4**. урегулювання, **5**. ЗАСЕЛЕННЯ.

settling see стабілізація.

seven see cim.

seventeen see сімнадцять.

seventh see сьомий.

seventy see сімдесят. several see 1. декілька, 2. кілька, 3. КІЛЬКОМА, 4. ДЕКІЛЬКОХ.

severe see 1. суворий, 2. ЖОРСТОКИЙ, 3. ретельний.

severely see суворо.

severity see 1. ЖОРСТОКІСТЬ, 2. суворість.

sewage see каналізація.

sex see 1. стать, 2. секс.

sexual see 1. статевий, 2. сексуальний.

sexy see сексуальний.

**shade** see 1. тінь, 2. затінок, 3. відтінок.

shadow see 1. тінь, 2. ЗАТІНОК.

shaft see 1. держак, 2. рукоятка, 3. стовбур, 4. стріла, 5. голобля.

shah see шах.

**shake** see 1. трясти, 2. тремтіти, 3. струс, 4. ПОТРЯСАТИ, 5. поштовх.

shallow see 1. мілкий, 2. мілина.

**shame** see 1. сором, 2. ганьба.

shape see форма.

share see 1. частина, 2. розділяти, 3. участь (participation), **4**. розподіляти, **5**. ПАЙ, **6**. доля, 7. АКЦІЯ, 8. ДІЛИТИ, 9. ПОДІЛЯТИ.

shareholder see 1. АКЦІОНЕР, 2. ПАЙОВИК. sharp see 1. гострий, 2. ДОТЕПНИЙ, 3. сильний,

виразний.

shed see 1. ангар, 2. гараж (garage), 3. лити, 4. ПОШИРЮВАТИ, 5. сарай.

**sheep** see 1. вівця, 2. баран (ram), 3. вівці.

sheer see 1. справжній, 2. ПОВНІСТЮ, 3. ПРОЗОРИЙ, 4. ПРЯМОВИСНИЙ, 5. ПРЯМОВИСНО, 6. АБСОЛЮТНИЙ.

sheet see 1. аркуш, 2. простирадло, 3. лист.

**shelf** see 1. полиця, 2. шельф, 3. уступ.

shell see 1. шкаралупа, 2. оболонка, 3. СНАРЯД.

shelter see 1. притулок (refuge), 2. ЗАХИСТОК.

shepherd see 1. чабан, 2. Доглядати, 3. Пасти, 4. Пастир, 5. ПАСТУХ, 6. Проводжати.

sherry see xepec.

shield see 1. щит, 2. ЕКРАНУВАТИ.

shift see 1. переміщення, 2. вивертатися, 3.

ЗМІНА, 4. ПЕРЕМІЩАТИ, 5. переміщатися. shifting see НЕПОСТІЙНИЙ.

shining see 1. блискучий, 2. видатний, 3. сяючий. shiny see 1. сонячний, 2. блискучий.

ship see 1. корабель, 2. ПЕРЕВОЗИТИ, 3. судно, 4. вантажити.

shipping see 1. вантаження, 2. судноплавство. shirt see сорочка.

shock see 1. удар, 2. потрясіння, 3. шокувати, 4. шок, 5. поштовх, 6. вражати, 7. обурювати.

**shoe** see 1. черевик, 2. підкова, 3. туфля.

shoot see 1. стріляти, 2. водоспад, 3.

ПОЛЮВАННЯ.

shooting see стрілянина.

shop see 1. магазин, 2. майстерня, 3. крамниця.

shore see 1. берег, 2. ПІДПИРАТИ, 3. ПІДПІРКА.

short see 1. короткий, 2. низький (low), 3.

НЕПОВНИЙ, 4. КОРОТКОСТРОКОВИЙ, 5. КОРОТКО, 6. КОРОТКОТЕРМІНОВИЙ.

shortage see 1. недостача, 2. нестача, 3. ДЕФІЦИТ.

shortly see 1. незабаром, 2. КОРОТКО, 3. скоро, 4. уривчасто.

**shorts** see 1. шорти, 2. труси.

shot see 1. стрілець, 2. спроба, 3. ПОСТРІЛ, 4. ПЕРЕЛИВЧАСТИЙ, 5. ЗАРЯДЖАТИ, 6. ЗНОШЕНИЙ.

shoulder see плече.

shout see 1. крик, 2. кричати.

shouting see крики.

show see 1. показувати, 2. показ, 3. видовище, 4. виставка, 5. виявляти, 6. ПОКАЗАТИ, 7. ВИСТАВА, 8. шоу.

**shower** see 1. душ, 2. злива, 3. ПОЛИВАТИ. showing see 1. враження (impression), 2. KIHOCEAHC.

shrine see paka.

shut see 1. закривати, 2. закритий, 3. зачиняти, 4. закрити, 5. зачинятися, 6. закриватися.

shy see 1. кидок, 2. НЕРІШУЧИЙ, 3. ПОЛОХЛИВИЙ, 4. соромливий. si see ci.

sick see 1. хворий, 2. хвороба, 3. НУДЬГУЮЧИЙ,

4. НЕЗДОРОВИЙ. sickness see 1. хвороба, 2. НУДОТА, 3. відраза.

side see 1. бік, 2. сторона, 3. АСПЕКТ, 4. бічний, борт, 6. КРАЙ.

sideways see 1. НЕПРЯМИЙ, 2. боком.

siege see облога.

sigh see 1. зітхати, 2. ПОДУВ.

sight see 1. зір, 2. вид, 3. погляд, 4. спостерігати, видовище, 6. побачити.

sign see 1. знак, 2. підписувати, 3. ПРИКМЕТА, 4. символ, 5. симптом, 6. ОЗНАКА, 7. ПІДПИСАТИ, 8. ПОЗНАЧКА.

signal see 1. сигнал, 2. сигналізувати.

signature see 1. підпис, 2. АВТОГРАФ, 3. ПІДПИСАННЯ.

significance see 1. значення, 2. багатозначність, 3. важливість.

significant see 1. чималий, 2. суттєвий, 3. істотний, 4. ЗНАЧНИЙ, 5. ЗНАМЕННИЙ, 6. багатозначний. 7. важливий.

silence see 1. тиша, 2. мовчання.

silent see 1. мовчазний, 2. безшумний, 3. тихий.

silently see 1. безмовно, 2. МОВЧКИ.

silk see 1. шовк, 2. шовковий.

silly see 1. дурник, 2. здурілий, 3. нерозумний. silver see 1. срібло, 2. срібний, 3. срібло.

slide see 1. ковзати, 2. ковзання, 3. слайд.

similar see 1. подібний, 2. схожий. similarity see подібність. simple see 1. простий, 2. ЗВИЧАЙНИЙ, 3. НЕСКЛАДНИЙ, 4. скромний. simplicity see 1. простота, 2. ПРОСТОДУШНІСТЬ, 3. скромність. simply see просто. simultaneous see одночасний. simultaneously see одночасно. sin see 1. гріх, 2. грішити. sincerely see щиро. sing see співати. singer see 1. співак, 2. бард, 3. співачка. singing see спів. single see 1. єдиний (sole), 2. неодружений, 3. самотній, 4. ОДИН (one), 5. ОДИНОЧНИЙ. sinister see 1. ЗЛИЙ, 2. ЗЛОВІСНИЙ. sink see 1. топити, 2. опускатися, 3. тонути, 4. затоплювати, 5. ОПУСКАТИ, 6. ПОГАШАТИ, 7. раковина. sir see 1. сер, 2. ПАН. sister see 1. сестра, 2. черниця. sit see 1. сидіти, 2. ЗАСІДАТИ, 3. садовити, 4. site see 1. МІСЦЕЗНАХОДЖЕННЯ, 2. МІСЦЕПЕРЕБУВАННЯ. sitting see 1. засідання, 2. сидіння, 3. СИДЯЧИЙ. situated see розташований. situation see 1. місце, 2. ситуація, 3. становище, 4. МІСЦЕПОЛОЖЕННЯ, 5. ПОЛОЖЕННЯ, 6. розташування, 7. стан. six see шість. sixteen see шістнадцять. sixteenth see шістнадцятий. sixth see шостий. sixty see шістдесят. size see 1. розмір, 2. номер, 3. КАЛІБР. skeleton see 1. скелет, 2. кістяк, 3. ОСТОВ. sketch see 1. ескіз, 2. начерк. ski see лижа. skill see 1. майстерність, 2. уміння, 3. МИСТЕЦТВО (art), 4. ремесло. skilled see 1. кваліфікований, 2. ДОСВІДЧЕНИЙ, умілий. skin see 1. шкіра, 2. шкура, 3. линяти. skipper see шкіпер. skirt see 1. спідниця, 2. узлісся, 3. ПОЛА, 4. ПІДНІЖЖЯ. skull see череп. sky see небо. slave see 1. раб, 2. невільник. sleep see 1. спати, 2. сон, 3. НІМІТИ, 4. ночувати.

sleeve see pykab.

slender see 1. НЕЗНАЧНИЙ, 2. тонкий.

slice see 1. скибка, 2. скибочка, 3. совок.

sliding see КОВЗНИЙ. slight see 1. нехтування, 2. легкий, 3. НЕЗНАЧНИЙ. slightly see злегка. slim see 1. стрункий, 2. тонкий, 3. тендітний. slip see 1. ковзання, 2. ковзати, 3. ПОМИЛКА (error, mistake). slipping see КОВЗАННЯ. **slope** *see* **1**. нахил, **2**. хилитися, **3**. схил. slot see 1. паз, 2. ПРОРІЗ, 3. щілина, 4. канавка. slow see 1. повільний, 2. НЕТЯМУЩИЙ, 3. ПОВІЛЬНО, 4. сповільнювати. **slowly** *see* **1**. повільно, **2**. ПОВОЛІ. small see 1. незначний, 2. малий, 3. дрібний, 4. тихо, 5. МАЛЕНЬКИЙ. smart see 1. тямущий, 2. боліти, 3. ЗНАЧНИЙ, 4. сильний, 5. спритний. smell see 1. запах, 2. пахнути, 3. нюхати, 4. НЮХ. smile see 1. усмішка, 2. усміхатися, 3. ПОСМІХАТИСЯ, 4. ПОСМІШКА. smith see 1. Коваль, 2. MEXAHIK, 3. Слюсар. smoke see 1. дим, 2. курити, 3. палити, 4. чадити, ДИМИТИСЯ. smoking see ПАЛІННЯ. smooth see 1. гладенький, 2. рівний, 3. гладкий, 4. ЗГЛАДЖУВАТИ, 5. ПЛАВНИЙ, 6. усувати. snake see 1. гадюка, 2. змія, 3. повзти, 4. витягувати. snow see chir. so see 1. так, 2. отже, 3. тому. soap see мило. sober see 1. тверезий, 2. розсудливий. soccer see футбол. social see 1. суспільний, 2. громадський, 3. вечірка, 4. соціальний. socialism see соціалізм. socialist see соціаліст. society see 1. суспільство, 2. товариство. sociological see соціологічний. sociology see соціологія. socket see 1. ЗАГЛИБЛЕННЯ, 2. ПАНЕЛЬ. sodium see 1. натрій, 2. натрій. sofa see 1. софа, 2. диван, 3. КАНАПА. soft see 1. м'який, 2. ніжний, 3. тихий, 4. ласкавий, М'ЯКІСТЬ, 6. М'ЯКОТЬ, 7. спокійний, 8. лагідний. softly see M'ЯКО. soil see 1. земля (earth), 2. ГРУНТ, 3. КРАЇНА, 4. ганьбити, 5. бруднити, 6. грунт. solar see сонячний. soldier see солдат. sole see 1. єдиний, 2. підошва, 3. виключний, 4. ВИНЯТКОВИЙ, 5. підметка. solely see виключно.

solicitor see 1. повірений, 2. юрисконсульт. solid see 1. твердий, 2. МІЦНИЙ, 3. солідний, 4. суцільний. solidarity see 1. солідарність, 2. СПІЛЬНІСТЬ. solo see соло. solution see 1. вирішення, 2. розчин, 3. розчинення, 4. розв'язання. solve see 1. розв'язувати, 2. вирішувати, 3. розв'язати, 4. розчиняти, 5. розчинятися. some see 1. якийсь, 2. КІЛЬКА, 3. деякі, 4. ДЕЯКИЙ, 5. ДЕЩО, 6. дехто, 7. ДЕКОТРИЙ, ОДНІ. somebody see 1. хтось, 2. ДЕХТО, 3. хто-небудь. somehow see 1. як-небудь, 2. якось. someone see 1. хтось, 2. ДЕХТО. something see 1. щось, 2. дещо, 3. що-небудь, 4. КІЛЬКА, 5. ПРИБЛИЗНО. sometime see 1. КОЛИ-НЕБУДЬ, 2. КОЛИСЬ. sometimes see 1. інколи, 2. іноді, 3. колись, 4. часом. somewhat see почасти. somewhere see 1. десь, 2. ДЕ-НЕБУДЬ. son see 1. син, 2. НАЩАДОК. song see 1. пісня, 2. спів. soon see 1. незабаром, 2. скоро, 3. ОХОЧЕ, 4. sophisticated see 1. фальсифікований, 2. складний, 3. ДОСВІДЧЕНИЙ, 4. витончений. sophistication see 1. софістика, 2. фальсифікація, 3. витонченість. sore see хворий. sorrow see 1. горе, 2. жаль, 3. смуток, 4. сум. sorry see 1. ЗАСМУЧЕНИЙ, 2. ЖАЛЮГІДНИЙ. sort see 1. сорт, 2. вид, 3. сортувати, 4. спосіб, 5. soul see 1. душа, 2. дух, 3. людина (human). sound see 1. звук, 2. звучати, 3. СМИСЛ, 4. ЗНАЧЕННЯ, 5. ЗДОРОВИЙ, 6. ДОБРОЯКІСНИЙ, 7. ШУМ (noise). sounding see 1. ЗВУЧНИЙ, 2. ПУСТИЙ, 3. soup see 1. суп, 2. юшка, 3. ПОЖВАВЛЮВАТИ. sour see 1. кислий, 2. КИСЛЯТИНА. source see 1. джерело (origin), 2. початок, 3. верхів'я. south see 1. південь. 2. Південний. 3. ПОЛУДЕНЬ. southern see південний. sovereignty see 1. суверенітет, 2. володарювання. space see 1. простір, 2. проміжок, 3. космос, 4.

МІСЦЕ, 5. КОСМІЧНИЙ, 6. відстань.

spare see 1. запасний, 2. щадити, 3. вільний, 4. ЕКОНОМИТИ, 5. ЗАЙВИЙ, 6. ПРИДІЛЯТИ,

spacious see 1. просторий, 2. всеосяжний.

резервний.
 spatial see просторовий.

speak see 1. говорити, 2. розмовляти, 3. сказати, 4. виступати. speaker see 1. доповідач, 2. промовець, 3. ДИКТОР, 4. ОРАТОР, 5. речник, 6. спікер, 7. special see 1. особливий, 2. спеціальний, 3. ЕКСТРЕНИЙ. specialist see 1. фахівець, 2. спеціаліст. specially see 1. спеціально, 2. ОСОБЛИВО. **species** see 1. вид, 2. порода, 3. рід, 4. різновид. specific see 1. специфічний, 2. точний (exact), 3. спеціальний, 4. КОНКРЕТНИЙ, 5. ОСОБЛИВИЙ. specifically see конкретно. specification see 1. специфікація, 2. ДЕТАЛЬ. specify see 1. ОБУМОВЛЮВАТИ, 2. уточнити, 3. уточнювати. specimen see 1. зразок, 2. тип, 3. взірець, 4. ЕКЗЕМПЛЯР. **spectacle** *see* **1**. видовище, **2**. вистава, **3**. спектакль. spectacles see окуляри (glasses). spectacular see ефектний. spectrum see спектр. speculation see 1. МІРКУВАННЯ, 2. роздумування, 3. спекуляція. speculative see 1. умоглядний, 2. СПЕКУЛЯТИВНИЙ, 3. теоретичний. speech see 1. промова, 2. мова (language), 3. speed see 1. швидкість, 2. МЧАТИ. spell see 1. заклинання, 2. чари, 3. зачаровувати, 4. ЗМІНЯТИ, 5. ПЕРЕДИХНУТИ. spelling see правопис. spend see 1. витрачати, 2. витратити, 3. тратити. spent see 1. виснажений, 2. витрачений. sphere see 1. сфера, 2. глобус, 3. КУЛЯ. spider see павук. spin see 1. кружляння, 2. КРУТИТИСЯ, 3. ПРЯСТИ, 4. КРУТИТИ, 5. спін. spine see 1. голка (needle), 2. хребет. spiral see 1. спіраль, 2. виток, 3. спіральний. spirit see 1. дух, 2. НАСТРІЙ, 3. НАТУРА, 4. тенденція. spiritual see 1. духовний, 2. ОДУХОТВОРЕНИЙ, 3. церковний. splendid see 1. блискучий, 2. розкішний. split see 1. РОЗБИВАТИ, 2. РОЗКОЛ, 3. РОЗКОЛЮВАТИ, 4. РОЗКОЛЮВАТИСЯ, 5. розрив. spoke see спиця. spokesman see 1. представник, 2. ПРОМОВЕЦЬ, 3. ОРАТОР, 4. ДЕЛЕГАТ. sponsorship see фінансування.

starting see 1. запуск, 2. ПОЧАТОК.

spontaneous see 1. мимовільний, 2. безпосередній, 3. ДОБРОВІЛЬНИЙ, 4. спонтанний. **spoon** see 1. ложка, 2. блешня. sport see спорт. **spot** see 1. пляма, 2. цятка, 3. прищик, 4. ганьба, 5. МІСЦЕВІСТЬ, 6. МІСЦЕ. spotted see 1. ЗАПЛЯМОВАНИЙ, 2. ПЛЯМИСТИЙ. spouse see 1. чоловік (man), 2. ДРУЖИНА, 3. ПОДРУЖЖЯ. spray see 1. гілка, 2. лозина, 3. ОБПРИСКУВАТИ. spread see 1. розповсюджуватися, 2. ПОШИРЕННЯ, 3. розстилати, 4. ПРОСТЯГАТИ, 5. поширювати, 6. поширюватися. spreading see ПОШИРЕННЯ. spring see 1. весна, 2. стрибати (jump), 3. пружина, 4. СТРИБОК, 5. ПРУЖНІСТЬ, 6. джерело (origin, source), 7. ресора, 8. ЕНЕРГІЯ. spy see шпигун. squad see команда. squadron see 1. ECKAДPA, 2. ECKAДPOH. square see 1. квадрат, 2. квадратний, 3. Площа (area), 4. СКВЕР, 5. ТОЧНИЙ (exact). stability see 1. стабільність, 2. стійкість. stable see 1. стійкий, 2. конюшня, 3. міцний, 4. стабільний, 5. стайня, 6. МАНЕЖ, 7. НЕПОХИТНИЙ, 8. ПОСТІЙНИЙ, 9. сталий. stack see 1. купа, 2. стек, 3. стіг. stadium see 1. стадіон, 2. СТАДІЙ. staff see 1. штат, 2. жезл, 3. палиця, 4. штаб, 5. флагшток, 6. стовп, 7. ПЕРСОНАЛ, 8. штатний. stage see 1. сцена, 2. стадія, 3. ІНСЦЕНУВАТИ, 4. ставити, 5. СТУПІНЬ, 6. ФАЗА. staircase see сходи. stairs see 1. сходи, 2. трап, 3. східці. stake see 1. КІЛОК, 2. ставка, 3. кіл. stall see 1. прилавок, 2. стійло, 3. хлів. stamp see 1. марка, 2. печатка, 3. штамп. stance see 1. ПОЗА, 2. ПОЗИЦІЯ. stand see 1. стояти, 2. ларьок, 3. СТЕНД, 4. СТІЙКА, 5. СТОЛИК, 6. знаходитися. standard see 1. норма, 2. стандарт, 3. стандартний. standing see 1. стояння, 2. стоячий, 3. стаж, 4. ПОСТІЙНИЙ, 5. тривалість, 6. становище. star see 1. зірка, 2. зоря. staring see ПИЛЬНИЙ. stark see АБСОЛЮТНИЙ. start see 1. починати, 2. пуск, 3. вирушати, 4.

ПОЧАТОК, 5. ПОЧАТИ, 6. рушати, 7. старт,

8. ПОЧИНАТИСЯ.

state see 1. держава, 2. стан, 3. становище, 4. УСТАНОВЛЮВАТИ. 5. ШТАТ. 6. положення, 7. КОНСТАТУВАТИ, 8. заявляти, 9. ДЕРЖАВНИЙ, 10. будова, 11. РАНГ, 12. пишність. stated see 1. ЗАФІКСОВАНИЙ, 2. установлений. statement see 1. виклад, 2. заява, 3. твердження. static see статичний. station see 1. станція, 2. вокзал, 3. МІСЦЕ. statistical see статистичний. statistics see 1. статистика, 2. статистики. statue see статуя. status see ctatyc. statute see 1. 3AKOH, 2. статут. stav see 1. залишатися, 2. перебування, 3. стримувати, 4. ОПОРА, 5. ЗУПИНЯТИСЯ, 6. ЖИТИ (live), 7. баритися, 8. ЗАТРИМУВАТИСЯ. steadily see стійко. steady see 1. стійкий, 2. ЗМІЦНЮВАТИ, 3. ПОСТІЙНИЙ, 4. сталий. steal see 1. красти, 2. крадіжка, 3. викрадати. steam see пара. steel see 1. сталь, 2. КРЕСАЛО, 3. точило. steep see 1. крутий, 2. занурення, 3. ЗАНУРЮВАТИ. stem see 1. стовбур, 2. стрижень, 3. стебло, 4. рід. step see 1. крок, 2. КРОКУВАТИ, 3. ступінь, 4. хода, 5. АЛЮР. sterling see 1. стерлінг, 2. стерлінговий. steward see 1. розпорядник, 2. стюард, 3. управляючий. stick see 1. ПРИКЛЕЮВАТИ, 2. ціпок, 3. смичок, свічник, 5. патик, 6. ПАЛКА, 7. липнути, 8. палиця. sticky see липкий. stiff see 1. міцний, 2. вексель, 3. напружений, 4. ЖОРСТКИЙ, 5. босяк, 6. тугий. still see 1. досі, 2. фотознімок, 3. ще, 4. тиша (silence), **5**. тихий, **6**. ПРОТЕ, **7**. НЕРУХОМИЙ, 8. ЗАСПОКОЮВАТИ, 9. безмовність, 10. все-таки, 11. ОДНАК. stimulate see 1. стимулювати, 2. ЗБУДЖУВАТИ. stimulation see 1. ЗБУДЖЕННЯ, 2. стимулювання, 3. стимуляція. stimulus see стимул. stir see 1. ворушити, 2. розмішувати, 3. метушня, 4. РОЗМІШУВАННЯ, 5. ХВИЛЮВАТИ, 6. РУХАТИ, 7. ворушіння, 8. ЗБУДЖУВАТИ, 9. ворушитися, 10. переполох. stitch see 1. шити, 2. шов. stock see 1. опора, 2. раса, 3. наявний, 4. інвентар, біржовий, 6. фонд. stole see ПАЛАНТИН. stolen see КРАДЕНИЙ.

stroke see удар.

```
stomach see 1. живіт, 2. шлунок.
                                                      strong see 1. сильний, 2. міцний, 3. витривалий, 4.
                                                         ДУЖИЙ, 5. МОГУТНІЙ, 6. твердий.
stone see 1. камінь, 2. КАМ'ЯНИЙ.
stool see табурет.
                                                      strongly see сильно.
stop see 1. зупинка, 2. зупиняти, 3. зупинятися, 4.
                                                      structural see 1. структурний, 2. будівельний.
   ЗУПИНИТИ, 5. ЗАТРИМКА, 6.
                                                      structure see 1. структура, 2. будівля.
   ПРИПИНЕННЯ, 7. ПРИПИНЯТИ, 8. спинити,
                                                      struggle see 1. боротися, 2. боротьба.
   9. спиняти.
                                                      student see 1. студент, 2. учень (pupil).
stopping see 1. зупинка, 2. ПЛОМБА, 3.
                                                      studied see ОБДУМАНИЙ.
   ЗУПИНЕННЯ.
                                                      studio see 1. студія, 2. телестудія, 3. радіостудія,
storage see 1. зберігання, 2. склад.
                                                         4. КІНОСТУДІЯ.
store see 1. склад, 2. запас, 3. крамниця, 4.
                                                      study see 1. вивчати, 2. вивчення, 3. вивчити, 4.
   магазин (shop), 5. ЗБЕРІГАТИ.
                                                         НАВЧАННЯ, 5. учитися.
storm see 1. буря, 2. шторм, 3. штурм, 4.
                                                      stuff see 1. матеріал, 2. МАЙНО, 3.
   штурмувати, 5. гроза, 6. бушувати.
                                                         ПЛОМБУВАТИ. 4. речовина.
story see 1. повість, 2. оповідання, 3. історія, 4.
                                                      stunning see ПРИГОЛОМШЛИВИЙ.
   КАЗКА, 5. новела, 6. ФАБУЛА.
                                                      stupid see 1. дурний, 2. безглуздий (absurd).
stove see 1. піч, 2. сушити, 3. теплиця.
                                                      style see 1. стиль, 2. гравірувати, 3. мода.
straight see 1. прямий, 2. прямо, 3. правильний.
                                                      stylistic see стилістичний.
straightforward see 1. відвертий, 2. ПРЯМИЙ, 3.
                                                      subject see 1. предмет, 2. тема, 3. ПІДЛЕГЛИЙ, 4.
   чесний.
                                                         підкоряти, 5. ПІДДАНИЙ, 6. ПІДДАВАТИ, 7.
strain see 1. зловживати, 2. напруження, 3.
                                                         ПІДВЛАДНИЙ, 8. ОБ'ЄКТ, 9. схильний.
  напружуватися, 4. походження, 5.
                                                      subjective see суб'єктивний.
   фільтрувати, 6. НАТЯГАТИ, 7. спадковість, 8.
                                                      submarine see підводний.
   схильність, 9. НАПРУЖУВАТИ, 10.
                                                      submission see 1. підкорення, 2. покірність, 3.
   НАПРУГА, 11. ДЕФОРМАЦІЯ, 12. НАТЯГ.
                                                         ПОКОРА, 4. пред'явлення.
strand see 1. берег, 2. ПАСМО.
                                                      submit see 1. підкорятися, 2. піддавати.
strange see 1. дивний, 2. НЕЗНАЙОМИЙ, 3.
                                                      subscription see 1. передплата, 2. ПОЖЕРТВА, 3.
   чудний, 4. чужий.
                                                         ПІДПИСАННЯ.
stranger see 1. НЕЗНАЙОМЕЦЬ, 2. чужоземець.
                                                      subsequent see наступний.
strategic see стратегічний.
                                                      subsequently see 1. згодом, 2. ПОТІМ.
strategy see стратегія.
                                                      subsidiary see 1. допоміжний, 2. ДОДАТКОВИЙ,
straw see 1. солома, 2. солом'яний.
                                                         3. ПОМІЧНИК.
stream see 1. потік, 2. струмок, 3. струмінь, 4.
                                                      subsidy see 1. субсидія, 2. ДОТАЦІЯ.
  текти, 5. течія.
                                                      substance see 1. субстанція, 2. суть, 3. речовина.
street see 1. вулиця, 2. Вуличний.
                                                      substantial see 1. істотний, 2. міцний, 3.
strength see 1. сила, 2. МІЦЬ, 3. МІЦНІСТЬ.
                                                         ЗАМОЖНИЙ, 4. ПОЖИВНИЙ, 5. важливий.
strengthen see 1. підсилювати, 2. ЗМІЦНЮВАТИ,
                                                      substantive see іменник.
   3. ПІДСИЛИТИ, 4. ПІДСИЛЮВАТИСЯ, 5.
                                                      substitute see 1. заміна. 2. замісник. 3.
   посилити.
                                                         ЗАСТУПНИК, 4. ЗАМІНЯТИ, 5. ЗАМІЩАТИ.
stress see 1. стрес, 2. тиск, 3. натиск, 4.
                                                      substitution see 1. заміна, 2. ЗАМІЩЕННЯ.
   напруження, 5. наголос, 6. зусилля, 7.
                                                      subtle see 1. витончений, 2. гострий, 3. ТОНКИЙ.
   ПІДКРЕСЛЮВАТИ.
                                                      suburban see приміський.
stretch see розтягувати.
                                                      succeed see 1. вдаватися, 2. удаватися, 3.
stretching see розтягування.
                                                         успадковувати.
strict see 1. точний (exact), 2. вимогливий, 3.
                                                      success see 1. успіх, 2. ДОБРОБУТ, 3.
   строгий, 4. суворий.
                                                         ПРОЦВІТАННЯ, 4. удача.
strike see 1. страйк, 2. бити, 3. ударяти, 4.
                                                      successful see 1. успішний, 2. вдалий, 3.
  уражати, 5. СТРАЙКУВАТИ, 6. прямувати, 7.
                                                         удачливий.
  проникати, 8. НАПАДАТИ, 9. ВСЕЛЯТИ, 10.
                                                      successfully see успішно.
                                                      succession see 1. послідовність, 2. НАЩАДКИ.
striker see 1. страйкар, 2. МОЛОТОБО€ЦЬ.
                                                      successive see наступний.
striking see 1. страйкування, 2. ударний.
                                                      successor see 1. наступник, 2. спадкоємець.
string see 1. вірьовка, 2. НАСТРОЮВАТИ, 3.
                                                      such see такий.
                                                      sudden see 1. раптовий, 2. НЕСПОДІВАНИЙ.
strip see 1. роздягати, 2. здирати, 3. смуга.
```

ПРИХИЛЬНИК.

supporter see 1. ПІДТЯЖКА, 2. ПРИБІЧНИК, 3.

**suddenly** *see* **1**. раптом, **2**. зненацька, **3**. НЕСПОДІВАНО. sue see Просити. suffer see 1. страждати, 2. ЗАЗНАВАТИ, 3. ПОСТРАЖДАТИ. sufferer see страждальник. suffering see страждання. sufficient see достатній. sufficiently see 1. достатньо, 2. ДОСИТЬ. sugar see цукор. suggest see 1. пропонувати, 2. радити. suggestion see 1. порада, 2. навіювання, 3. натяк, 4. ПРОПОЗИЦІЯ, 5. ПРОПОНУВАННЯ. suicide see самогубство. suit see 1. годитися, 2. костюм, 3. ПІДХОДИТИ, 4. ПРОХАННЯ, 5. КЛОПОТАННЯ, 6. КОМПЛЕКТ, 7. ПАСУВАТИ. suitable see 1. придатний, 2. відповідний (appropriate), **3**. ЗРУЧНИЙ, **4**. ПІДХОДЯЩИЙ, 5. ПІДХОЖИЙ. suitcase see 1. чемодан, 2. валізка. **suite** *see* **1**. КОМПЛЕКТ, **2**. НАБІР, **3**. ПОЧЕТ. sulphur see 1. сірка, 2. ЗЕЛЕНУВАТО-ЖОВТИЙ. sum see 1. сума, 2. ПІДСУМОВУВАТИ. summary see 1. КОНСПЕКТ, 2. резюме, 3. сумарний. summer see лiто. summit see 1. вершина, 2. ЗЕНІТ. summons see виклик. sun see сонце. sunk see ЗАНУРЕНИЙ. sunny see 1. сонячний, 2. веселий. sunshine see радість. superb see чудовий (wonderful). superficial see поверховий. superintendent see 1. керівник, 2. НАГЛЯДАЧ. superior see 1. кращий, 2. НАЧАЛЬНИК, 3. НЕДОСЯЖНИЙ, 4. ПЕРЕВАЖАЮЧИЙ, 5. старший, 6. верхній. superiority see 1. перевага, 2. старшинство. supermarket see супермаркет. supervision see нагляд. supervisor see 1. наглядач, 2. МЕТОДИСТ, 3. КОНТРОЛЕР. supper see 1. вечеря, 2. вечеряти.

supplement see 1. додаток, 2. ДОПОВНЮВАТИ.

supply see 1. постачати, 2. постачання, 3. ЗАПАС,

4. ДОСТАВЛЯТИ, 5. відшкодовувати, 6.

support see 1. підтримка, 2. підтримувати, 3.

supplementary see додатковий.

supplies see ПРОДОВОЛЬСТВО.

supplier see постачальник.

поставка.

опора.

supporting see ПІДТРИМУЮЧИЙ. suppose see 1. гадати, 2. припускати, 3. вважати, 4. ДОПУСКАТИ (admit). supposed see ПЕРЕДБАЧУВАНИЙ. supreme see 1. верховний, 2. вищий, 3. найвищий, 4. граничний. sure see 1. вірний (faithful), 2. ПЕВНИЙ, 3. упевнений. surely see 1. звичайно, 2. безсумнівно. surface see поверхня. surge see 1. брижі, 2. МОРЕ (sea), 3. ПІДНІМАТИСЯ. surgeon see xipypr. surgery see хірургія. surgical see хірургічний. surplus see 1. лишок, 2. ОСТАЧА, 3. решта, 4. зайвий, 5. ЗАЛИШОК, 6. НАДЛИШОК. surprise see 1. дивувати, 2. здивування, 3. ЗДИВУВАТИ, 4. несподіванка, 5. подив, 6. СЮРПРИЗ. surprised see здивований. surprisingly see дивовижно. surrender see 1. здаватися, 2. здача. surrounding see навколишній. surroundings see 1. середовище, 2. ОКОЛИЦІ, 3. оточення. surveillance see нагляд. survey see 1. огляд, 2. інспектування, 3. ОГЛЯДАТИ. surveyor see 1. МИТНИК, 2. топограф, 3. ЗЕМЛЕМІР, 4. МАРКШЕЙДЕР. survival see 1. виживання, 2. ПЕРЕЖИТОК. survive see 1. виживати, 2. вижити. susceptible see 1. вразливий, 2. чутливий. suspect see 1. підозрілий, 2. підозрювати. suspended see 1. ПІДВІСНИЙ, 2. підвішений. suspicion see підозра. suspicious see підозрілий. sustain see 1. підтримувати, 2. зазнавати, 3. підпирати, 4. ВИТРИМУВАТИ. swan see лебіль. sweat see 1. піт, 2. потіти. sweater see 1. светр, 2. ЕКСПЛУАТАТОР, 3. пуловер. sweet see 1. солодкий, 2. ЦУКЕРКА, 3. ЗАПАШНИЙ. swift see 1. швидкий (quick), 2. хуткий. swiftly see швидко. swim see 1. плавати, 2. плавання. swimming see 1. плавання, 2. ЗАПАМОРОЧЕННЯ. swing see 1. КОЛИВАТИСЯ, 2. КОЛИХАТИ, 3. КОЛИВАННЯ, 4. гойдалка, 5. розмах.

swinging see гойдання.

switch see вимикач.

sword see 1. меч, 2. шабля, 3. шпага.

**syllabus** *see* **1**. програма, **2**. КОНСПЕКТ, **3**. розклад.

symbol see символ.

symbolic see символічний.

symmetry see симетрія.

**sympathetic** *see* **1**. співчутливий, **2**. доброзичливий, **3**. симпатичний.

**sympathy** *see* **1**. співчуття, **2**. симпатія, **3**. взаєморозуміння, **4**. прихильність.

symptom see 1. симптом, 2. ПРИЗНАК.

syndrome see синдром.

syntactic see синтаксичний.

svntax see синтаксис.

synthesis see синтез.

synthetic see 1. синтетичний, 2. штучний.

system see 1. система, 2. ОРГАНІЗМ, 3. устрій.

systematic see систематичний.

# T

table see 1. стіл, 2. таблиця, 3. табель, 4. розклад, 5. ЛОШКА.

tackle see 1. упряж, 2. ОБЛАДНАННЯ.

tactical see тактичний.

tactics see тактика.

tail see 1. хвіст, 2. КІНЧИК, 3. КРАЙ.

**take** *see* **1**. брати, **2**. ЗАХОПЛЮВАТИ, **3**. ловити, **4**. взяти, **5**. ПРИЙМАТИ (accept).

taking see взяття.

**tale** *see* **1**. оповідання, **2**. КАЗКА, **3**. КАЗКИ, **4**. ПОВІСТЬ. **5**. число.

talent see талант.

talented see 1. талановитий, 2. ОБДАРОВАНИЙ.

talk see 1. говорити, 2. розмовляти, 3. розмова, 4.

**talking** *see* **1**. виразний, **2**. говіркий, **3**. розмова. **tall** *see* високий (high).

**tangible** *see* **1**. матеріальний, **2**. відчутний, **3**. реальний.

tank see 1. танк, 2. цистерна, 3. бак, 4. резервуар. tap see 1. кран, 2. пробка, 3. СОРТ, 4. СТУКАТИ.

tape see 1. стрічка, 2. тасьма.

target see 1. мішень, 2. ціль, 3. МЕТА.

tariff see 1. тариф, 2. розцінка.

task see 1. завдання, 2. задача, 3. урок.

**taste** *see* **1**. куштувати, **2**. смак, **3**. дегустувати, **4**. проба.

**tax** *see* **1**. податок, **2**. оподатковувати, **3**. МИТО (customs).

taxation see оподаткування.

taxi see таксі.

tea see 1. чай, 2. НАСТІЙ.

**teach** *see* **1**. навчати, **2**. викладати, **3**. вчити, **4**. НАВЧИТИ, **5**. учити.

teacher see 1. викладач, 2. учитель, 3. вчитель. teaching see навчання.

**team** *see* **1**. команда, **2**. бригада, **3**. запряжка, **4**. група (group).

tear see 1. рвати, 2. сльоза, 3. розрив, 4. шаленіти, 5. вихоплювати, 6. КРАПЛЯ, 7. рватися, 8. роздирати.

technical see 1. технічний, 2. формальний, 3. спеціальний.

technically see технічно.

**technique** *see* **1**. техніка, **2**. МЕТОД, **3**. МЕТОДИКА, **4**. технологія.

technological see технологічний.

technology see 1. технологія, 2. техніка.

tedious see нудний.

teeth see ЗУБИ.

telegraph see 1. телеграф, 2. ТЕЛЕГРАФУВАТИ.

**telephone** *see* **1**. телефон, **2**. телефонувати, **3**. телефонний.

**television** *see* **1**. телебачення, **2**. телевізор, **3**. телевізійний.

tell see 1. розповідати, 2. говорити, 3. СКАЗАТИ, 4. СВІДЧИТИ, 5. РОЗПОВІСТИ, 6. РОЗКАЗАТИ, 7. ПОЗНАЧАТИСЯ, 8. ЗАПЕВНЯТИ, 9. РОЗКАЗУВАТИ.

**telling** *see* **1**. наказ, **2**. розповідь, **3**. догана, **4**. ОБЛІК.

telly see телевізор.

temper see 1. настрій, 2. темперамент, 3. стримувати, 4. ПОМ'ЯКШУВАТИ, 5. вдача.

temperament see темперамент.

temperature see температура.

temple see 1. храм, 2. СКРОНЯ, 3. церква.

temporarily see тимчасово.

temporary see тимчасовий.

temptation see 1. спокуса, 2. ПРИНАДА.

tempting see ПРИНАДНИЙ.

ten see десять.

tenancy see оренда.

tenant see 1. орендар, 2. наймач.

tend see 1. ДОГЛЯДАТИ, 2. піклуватися.

tendency see тенденція.

tender see 1. ніжний, 2. тендер, 3. сторож, 4. турботливий, 5. ПРОПОНУВАТИ, 6. виконувати, 7. нянька, 8. слабкий.

tennis see Tenic.

tense see 1. ЗБУДЖЕНИЙ, 2. ЗБУДЖУВАТИ, 3. НАПРУЖЕНИЙ, 4. НАТЯГНУТИЙ, 5. час.

tension see 1. напруженість, 2. напруження.

tent see 1. намет, 2. шатро.

tentative see 1. пробний, 2. ПОПЕРЕДНІЙ. tenth see десятий.

tenure see володіння.

term see 1. строк, 2. термін, 3. семестр.

**terminal** *see* **1**. кінцевий, **2**. термінальний, **3**. термінал, **4**. ПЕРІОДИЧНИЙ.

termination see 1. припинення, 2. результат.

terminology see термінологія.

terrace see repaca.

**terrain** *see* **1**. територія (territory), **2**. земний, **3**. МІСЦЕВІСТЬ.

terrible see 1. страшний, 2. ЖАХЛИВИЙ.

terrific see 1. ЖАХАЮЧИЙ, 2. ЖАХЛИВИЙ.

territorial see 1. територіальний, 2. ЗЕМЕЛЬНИЙ.

**territory** *see* **1**. територія, **2**. земля (earth), **3**. область, **4**. галузь, **5**. сфера.

terror see 1. жах, 2. страх (fear), 3. терор.

terrorism see тероризм.

terrorist see терорист.

**test** *see* **1**. випробовувати, **2**. випробування, **3**.

testament see 1. заповіт, 2. завіт.

**testimony** *see* **1**. доказ, **2**. твердження, **3**. ПОКАЗАННЯ.

testing see випробування.

text see текст.

textile see 1. текстильний, 2. тканина.

texture see текстура.

thank see 1. дякувати, 2. ПОДЯКУВАТИ.

thanks see 1. подяка, 2. спасибі.

theatre see театр.

theatrical see театральний.

theft see 1. крадіжка, 2. ЗЛОДІЙСТВО.

theme see тема.

then see 1. потім, 2. тоді, 3. тодішній.

theological see теологічний.

theology see теологія.

theoretical see теоретичний.

theory see теорія.

therapeutic see терапевтичний.

therapy see терапія.

there see 1. туди, 2. там, 3. тут, 4. ОСЬ.

thereafter see 1. відповідно, 2. ЗГОДОМ.

therefore see 1. тому, 2. ОТЖЕ.

**thermal** *see* **1**. тепловий, **2**. термічний, **3**. термальний.

thesis see 1. теза, 2. ПОЛОЖЕННЯ, 3. ДИСЕРТАЦІЯ.

thick see 1. густий, 2. товстий, 3. гущавина, 4. щільний.

thickness see 1. товщина, 2. шар.

thief see злодій.

thigh see стегно.

thin see 1. тонкий, 2. худнути, 3. худий.

thing see 1. річ, 2. СПРАВА.

think see 1. вважати, 2. думати, 3. гадати, 4. припускати, 5. ПРИДУМУВАТИ, 6. розуміти,

7. МІРКУВАТИ, **8**. ОБМІРКОВУВАТИ, **9**. ПОДУМАТИ.

thinking see міркування.

third see 1. третій, 2. третина.

thirdly see no-tpete.

thirteen see тринадцять.

thirteenth see тринадцятий.

thirty see тридцять.

thorough see ретельний.

thoroughly see цілком.

thou see TM.

though see 1. хоч, 2. хоча, 3. все-таки, 4. ОДНАК.

**thought** *see* **1**. думка, **2**. намір (intent, intention), **3**. гадка, **4**. ідея, **5**. МИСЛЕННЯ, **6**.

МІРКУВАННЯ, 7. ПІКЛУВАННЯ.

thoughtful see 1. замислений, 2. уважний, 3. вдумливий.

thoughtfully see замислено.

thousand see тисяча.

thread see нитка.

threat see 1. загроза, 2. погроза.

threaten see 1. загрожувати, 2. ПОГРОЖУВАТИ.

three see 1. три, 2. трійка.

threshold see поріг.

throat see 1. горло, 2. горловина.

throne see трон.

**through** *see* **1**. через, **2**. наскрізь.

throughout see 1. всюди, 2. усюди.

throw see 1. кидати, 2. кидок, 3. КИНУТИ.

thrust see 1. поштовх, 2. ШТОВХАТИ.

**thumb** *see* **1**. ПАЛЕЦЬ (finger), **2**. ОБМАЦУВАТИ.

thunder see 1. грім, 2. гриміти.

thus see 1. отже, 2. так, 3. ладан, 4. смола, 5. тому.

**ticket** see 1. квиток, 2. білет, 3. ПОСВІДКА, 4.

КВИТАНЦІЯ, 5. ярлик.

tide see 1. MOPE (sea), 2. HOTIK.

tidy see 1. охайний, 2. ПРИБИРАТИ.

tie see 1. краватка, 2. зав'язувати, 3. зв'язок, 4. зв'язувати, 5. ПРИВ'ЯЗУВАТИ, 6. галстук.

tiger see тигр.

tight see 1. тісний, 2. НАПРУЖЕНИЙ, 3. тугий, 4. щільний, 5. щільно.

tightly see щільно.

till see 1. до, 2. каса, 3. ПОКИ, 4. ОРАТИ.

timber see лісоматеріал.

time see 1. раз, 2. час, 3. строк, 4. часи, 5. година.

timetable see розклад.

timing see розклад.

tin see 1. олово, 2. консервувати, 3. ОЛОВ'ЯНИЙ, 4. бляшанка.

tiny see крихітний.

tip see 1. чайові, 2. наконечник, 3. натяк, 4. нахил, 5. нахиляти, 6. ДОТИК, 7. КІНЧИК, 8. мундштук, 9. ПОРАДА.

- tired see 1. стомлений, 2. втомлений.
- tissue see 1. тканина, 2. ПАВУТИНА.
- **title** *see* **1**. заголовок, **2**. звання, **3**. титул, **4**. назва, **5**. називати, **6**. титулувати.
- to see 1. до, 2. на, 3. в, 4. ДЛЯ.
- **to achieve** *see* **1**. досягати, **2**. ДОСЯГТИ, **3**. ДОБИВАТИСЯ.
- to adopt see 1. приймати (ассерt), 2. усиновляти, 3. ПЕРЕЙМАТИ, 4. ЗАПОЗИЧУВАТИ, 5. вибирати, 6. усиновити, 7. ЗАСВОЮВАТИ.
- to advise see 1. радити, 2. сповіщати, 3. ПОРАДИТИ, 4. ПОВІДОМЛЯТИ, 5. КОНСУЛЬТУВАТИ.
- to assess see 1. ОЦІНЮВАТИ, 2. штрафувати, 3. ОПОДАТКОВУВАТИ.
- to bring see 1. приносити, 2. приводити, 3. доставляти, 4. принести, 5. ПЕРЕКОНУВАТИ, 6. ПРИВЕСТИ, 7. ПРИЗВОДИТИ.
- **to celebrate** *see* **1**. святкувати, **2**. ПРОСЛАВЛЯТИ.
- to come see 1. приходити, 2. відбуватися, 3. ПРИЇЖДЖАТИ, 4. траплятися, 5. ставати, 6. ПРИЇЗДИТИ, 7. ПРИБУВАТИ (arrive), 8. НАСТАВАТИ, 9. ДОХОДИТИ, 10. ПРИЙТИ.
- to compensate see 1. компенсувати, 2. винагороджувати, 3. відшкодовувати, 4. відшкодувати.
- to compete see 1. конкурувати, 2. ЗМАГАТИСЯ.
- to complain see 1. скаржитися, 2. НАРІКАТИ.
- to comply see 1. погоджуватися, 2. ПІДКОРЯТИСЯ, 3. ПОСТУПАТИСЯ, 4. виконувати.
- to contemplate see 1. ОБДУМУВАТИ, 2. споглядати, 3. МІРКУВАТИ.
- **to convey** *see* **1**. транспортувати, **2**. виражати, **3**. ПЕРЕВОЗИТИ, **4**. ПЕРЕДАВАТИ, **5**. ПОВІДОМЛЯТИ.
- to create see 1. створювати, 2. творити, 3. ВИКЛИКАТИ, 4. СТВОРИТИ, 5. ХВИЛЮВАТИСЯ.
- to deny see 1. заперечувати, 2. відмовляти, 3. зрікатися, 4. спростовувати, 5. відкидати, 6. ЗАПЕРЕЧИТИ.
- to derive see 1. ОДЕРЖУВАТИ, 2. походити.
- to describe see 1. описувати, 2. ЗМАЛЬОВУВАТИ, 3. ЗОБРАЖАТИ, 4. ОПИСАТИ.
- **to develop** *see* **1**. розвивати, **2**. УДОСКОНАЛЮВАТИ, **3**. РОЗРОБЛЯТИ.
- to differ see 1. відрізнятися, 2. РІЗНИТИСЯ.
- **to discover** *see* **1**. відкривати, **2**. ДОВІДУВАТИСЯ, **3**. виявляти.
- **to disturb** *see* **1**. непокоїти, **2**. турбувати, **3**. хвилювати, **4**. ПОРУШУВАТИ.
- to earn see 1. заробляти, 2. ЗАСЛУГОВУВАТИ.

- to emerge see 1. з'являтися, 2. З'ЯСОВУВАТИСЯ, 3. спливати.
- to evaluate see 1. оцінювати, 2. ОЦІНИТИ.
- to exist see 1. існувати, 2. бути, 3. жити (live).
- to expect see 1. очікувати, 2. чекати (wait), 3. сподіватися, 4. НАДІЯТИСЯ, 5. ЖДАТИ, 6. розраховувати.
- to fulfil see 1. виконувати, 2. ЗДІЙСНЮВАТИ, 3. ЗАВЕРШУВАТИ.
- **to identify** *see* 1. визначати, **2**. ідентифікувати, **3**. ототожнювати, **4**. розпізнавати, **5**. ПІЗНАВАТИ.
- **to include** *see* **1**. включати, **2**. враховувати, **3**. ЗВАЖАТИ, **4**. МІСТИТИ.
- to induce see спонукати.
- to insist see 1. НАСТОЮВАТИ, 2. НАПОЛЯГАТИ.
- to introduce see 1. вводити, 2. вносити, 3. запроваджувати, 4. ЗНАЙОМИТИ, 5. представляти, 6. УВОДИТИ, 7. ввести.
- to investigate *see* 1. досліджувати, 2. ДОСЛІДИТИ, 3. розслідувати.
- to listen see 1. слухати, 2. СЛУХАТИСЯ.
- to modify see 1. змінювати, 2. видозмінювати, 3. ПОМ'ЯКШУВАТИ.
- to noun see іменник.
- to occur see 1. відбуватися, 2. траплятися, 3. ЗУСТРІЧАТИСЯ.
- to participate see 1. ПОДІЛЯТИ, 2. КОРИСТУВАТИСЯ.
- to persuade see 1. переконувати, 2. ПЕРЕКОНАЙТЕ, 3. ПЕРЕКОНАТИ, 4. умовити, 5. умовляти.
- to practise see 1. тренувати, 2. тренуватися, 3. ЗДІЙСНЮВАТИ, 4. ЗАСТОСОВУВАТИ, 5. ПРАКТИКУВАТИСЯ.
- **to predict** *see* **1**. ПРОВІЩАТИ, **2**. ПРОРОКУВАТИ.
- to prefer see 1. ПІДВИЩУВАТИ, 2. ПОДАВАТИ. to provide see 1. забезпечувати, 2. передбачати, 3. постачати, 4. ДАВАТИ, 5. ЗАГОТОВЛЯТИ, 6. ЗАПАСАТИ.
- **to pursue** *see* **1**. переслідувати, **2**. гнатися, **3**. ЗАЙМАТИСЯ, **4**. ПРОДОВЖУВАТИ.
- **to qualify** *see* **1**. визначати, **2**. НАВЧАТИ (teach), **3**. НАЗИВАТИ.
- **to react** *see* **1**. реагувати, **2**. впливати, **3**. ПРОТИДІЯТИ.
- **to recommend** *see* **1**. рекомендувати, **2**. радити, **3**. ПРЕДСТАВЛЯТИ, **4**. висувати.
- **to recover** *see* **1**. відновлювати, **2**. НАДОЛУЖУВАТИ, **3**. видужувати.
- to refer see 1. посилатися, 2. спрямовувати, 3. ПРИПИСУВАТИ, 4. ПОСИЛАТИ, 5. ЗГАДУВАТИ, 6. відноситись, 7. ЗВЕРТАТИСЯ.

to reinforce see 1. ПІДСИЛЮВАТИ, 2. ПОСИЛЮВАТИ.

to relate see 1. розповідати, 2. розповісти.

to remember see 1. згадувати, 2. пам'ятати, 3. ПРИГАДУВАТИ, 4. ЗАПАМ'ЯТАТИ, 5. ЗГАДАТИ, 6. ПРИГАДАТИ.

**to replace** *see* **1**. заміняти, **2**. ЗАМІНИТИ, **3**. ЗАМІНЮВАТИ, **4**. ЗАМІЩАТИ, **5**. ПОВЕРТАТИ.

to resign see відмовлятися.

to restrict see обмежувати.

to retain see 1. зберігати, 2. ЗДЕРЖУВАТИ, 3. ПАМ'ЯТАТИ, 4. утримувати.

to seem see здаватися.

**to send** *see* **1**. посилати, **2**. ПЕРЕСЛАТИ, **3**. ПОСЛАТИ, **4**. відправляти.

to tend see 1. ДОГЛЯДАТИ, 2. піклуватися.

to thank see 1. дякувати, 2. ПОДЯКУВАТИ.

**to transform** *see* 1. змінювати, 2. перетворювати, 3. трансформувати, 4. видозмінювати, 5. перетворити.

to undertake see 1. починати, 2. ручатися.

to warn see 1. попереджати, 2. ЗАСТЕРІГАТИ.

toast see 1. тост, 2. грінка.

tobacco see 1. тютюн, 2. тютюновий.

today see сьогодні.

**together** *see* **1**. разом, **2**. ОДНОЧАСНО, **3**. спільно, **4**. укупі.

**toilet** *see* **1**. туалет, **2**. туалетний, **3**. убиральня, **4**. КОСТЮМ.

**tolerance** *see* **1**. терпимість, **2**. толерантність, **3**. стерпність.

**tolerate** *see* **1**. дозволяти, **2**. терпіти, **3**. витримувати, **4**. ДОПУСКАТИ (admit).

**toll** *see* **1**. мито (customs), **2**. благовіст, **3**. благовістити.

tomato see 1. помідор, 2. томат.

tomb see 1. могила, 2. гробниця.

tomorrow see завтра.

tone see 1. тон, 2. настроювати.

tongue see 1. язик, 2. мова (language).

too see 1. надто, 2. також, 3. дуже, 4. ЗАНАДТО.

tool see 1. інструмент, 2. різець, 3. ДІЯТИ, 4. ЗНАРЯДДЯ.

tooth see зуб.

top see 1. верхівка, 2. верх, 3. верхній, 4. вершина, 5. НАЙВИЩИЙ, 6. шпиль.

topic see 1. тема, 2. ПРЕДМЕТ.

torch see 1. світоч, 2. смолоскип, 3. факел.

**torture** *see* **1**. катувати, **2**. катування, **3**. МУКА, **4**. мучити, **5**. тортури.

total see 1. повний, 2. ціле, 3. тотальний, 4. сума, 5. весь, 6. підсумок, 7. увесь, 8. цілий, 9. цілковитий, 10. сумарний.

totally see повністю.

**touch** *see* **1**. дотик, **2**. торкатися, **3**. доторкатися, **4**. торкати.

touching see 1. дотик, 2. ЗВОРУШЛИВИЙ.

tough see 1. міцний, 2. твердий.

**tour** *see* **1**. подорож (journey, trip), **2**. мандрівка, **3**. подорожувати, **4**. тур.

tourism see туризм.

tourist see турист.

tournament see турнір.

towel see рушник.

tower see 1. вежа, 2. башта, 3. височіти, 4. опора. town see 1. місто, 2. МІСТЕЧКО.

toxic see токсичний.

tov see іграшка.

trace see 1. слід, 2. КРЕСЛИТИ.

track see 1. колія, 2. слід, 3. стежити, 4. трек.

tract see тракт.

tractor see трактор.

trade see 1. заняття, 2. ремесло, 3. торгівля, 4. торгувати, 5. ПРОФЕСІЯ, 6. торговий, 7. ФАХ.

trading see 1. торгівля, 2. торговельний.

tradition see 1. традиція, 2. переказ.

traditional see традиційний.

**traffic** *see* **1**. рух, **2**. транспорт, **3**. торгівля, **4**. ПЕРЕВЕЗЕННЯ.

tragedy see трагедія.

tragic see 1. трагічний, 2. трагедійний.

trail see 1. слід, 2. стежка.

train see 1. поїзд, 2. потяг, 3. ПРОЦЕСІЯ, 4. тренувати, 5. КАРАВАН, 6. виховувати.

trained see 1. ДРЕСИРОВАНИЙ, 2. НАВЧЕНИЙ.

trainee see стажер.

trainer see 1. інструктор, 2. тренер.

**training** *see* **1**. підготовка, **2**. тренування, **3**. НАВЧАЛЬНИЙ, **4**. виховання.

transaction see 1. справа, 2. угода, 3. ведення.

**transcription** *see* **1**. транскрипція, **2**. КОПІЯ, **3**. ПЕРЕПИСУВАННЯ.

**transfer** *see* **1**. переносити, **2**. перенесення, **3**. пересадка, **4**. ПЕРЕНЕСТИ, **5**. ПЕРЕДАЧА, **6**. ПЕРЕДАВАТИ, **7**. ПЕРЕВЕДЕННЯ, **8**. ПЕРЕВОДИТИ, **9**. ПЕРЕМІЩЕННЯ.

**transform** see 1. змінювати, 2. перетворювати, 3. трансформувати, 4. видозмінювати, 5. перетворити.

transformation see 1. перетворення, 2. трансформація, 3. ЗМІНА.

transit see 1. ПЕРЕВЕЗЕННЯ, 2. транзит.

transition see перехід.

transitional see перехідний.

**translation** *see* **1**. переклад, **2**. ПЕРЕМІЩЕННЯ, **3**. ТРАНСЛЯЦІЯ.

**transmission** *see* **1**. передача, **2**. ПЕРЕСИЛКА, **3**. трансмісія.

**transparent** see 1. прозорий, 2. зрозумілий, 3. ОЧЕВИДНИЙ (evident).

**transport** *see* **1**. транспорт, **2**. перевозити, **3**. транспортувати, **4**. транспортний, **5**. ПЕРЕВЕЗТИ, **6**. ПЕРЕВЕЗЕННЯ, **7**. возити, **8**. везти.

**transportation** *see* **1**. транспорт, **2**. перевезення, **3**. транспортування.

**trap** see 1. пастка, 2. капкан, 3. ЗАМАНЮВАТИ. **trauma** see травма.

travel see 1. мандрувати, 2. подорож (journey, trip), 3. мандрівка, 4. ПОДОРОЖУВАТИ, 5. їзлити

traveller see 1. мандрівник, 2. КОМІВОЯЖЕР. travelling see ПОДОРОЖ (journey, trip).

tray see 1. піднос, 2. таця, 3. лоток.

treasure see 1. скарб, 2. гроші (money), 3. скарбу.

treasurer see 1. скарбник, 2. хранитель.

**treasury** *see* **1**. скарбниця, **2**. казна, **3**. КАЗНАЧЕЙСТВО.

**treat** *see* **1**. лікувати, **2**. ОБРОБЛЯТИ, **3**. розглядати, **4**. частування.

**treatment** *see* **1**. лікування, **2**. ставлення, **3**. трактування.

treaty see 1. договір, 2. угода.

tree see 1. дерево, 2. шибениця.

**trembling** *see* **1**. тремтіння, **2**. тремтячий, **3**. тріпотливий.

tremendous see 1. величезний, 2. жахливий.

trench see 1. рів, 2. КАНАВА, 3. рити.

trend see 1. напрям, 2. тенденція.

**trial** see **1**. випробування, **2**. ПЕРЕЖИВАННЯ, **3**. ПРОБА.

triangle see 1. трикутник, 2. КОСИНЕЦЬ.

tribe see 1. плем'я, 2. КЛАН, 3. покоління.

tribunal see 1. суд, 2. трибунал.

**tribute** *see* **1**. нагорода, **2**. данина, **3**. ПІДНОШЕННЯ.

**trick** *see* **1**. хитрість, **2**. жарт (joke), **3**. обманювати, **4**. ОМАНА, **5**. трюк.

**tricky** see 1. хитрий, 2. МУДРОВАНИЙ, 3. складний.

trio see rpio.

**trip** *see* **1**. подорож (journey), **2**. мандрівка, **3**. поїздка.

triumph see тріумф.

triumphant see переможний.

trivial see 1. тривіальний, 2. НЕЗНАЧНИЙ.

trolley see 1. вагонетка, 2. візок, 3. тролейбус.

trophy see 1. трофей, 2. ПРИЗ, 3. ЗДОБИЧ.

tropical see 1. тропічний, 2. ЖАРКИЙ.

trouble see 1. клопіт, 2. неспокій, 3. турбота, 4. біда, 5. НЕПОКОЇТИ, 6. НЕПРИЄМНІСТЬ, 7. ТУРБУВАТИ, 8. турбуватися.

troubled see 1. НЕСПОКІЙНИЙ, 2. штормовий. trousers see штани.

**truck** *see* **1**. товарообмін, **2**. вантажівка, **3**. візок, **4**. ОБМІНЮВАТИ.

true see 1. правильний, 2. вірний (faithful), 3. справжній, 4. відданий, 5. дійсний (valid), 6. точно, 7. точний (exact), 8. правдиво, 9. істинний, 10. вірно, 11. ПРАВДИВИЙ.

truly see 1. справді, 2. лояльно, 3. ПРАВДИВО. trunk see 1. стовбур, 2. тулуб, 3. МАГІСТРАЛЬ,

**4**. ЖОЛОБ, **5**. багажник, **6**. хобот, **7**. труба.

**trust** *see* **1**. довір'я, **2**. довіряти, **3**. трест, **4**. вірити, **5**. ДОВІРА.

trustee see 1. опікун, 2. ПОПЕЧИТЕЛЬ.

truth see 1. правда, 2. істина, 3. відповідність, 4. ПРАВДИВІСТЬ.

try see 1. намагатися, 2. пробувати, 3. старатися, 4. спроба.

trying see 1. важкий, 2. ДРАТІВНИЙ, 3. НАДОКУЧЛИВИЙ, 4. стомливий, 5. тяжкий.

**tube** see **1**. труба, **2**. тюбик, **3**. трубка, **4**. тунель. **tumour** see ПУХЛИНА.

**tune** see 1. мотив, 2. настроювати, 3. злагода. **tunnel** see тунель.

**turbulent** *see* **1**. бурхливий, **2**. буйний, **3**. турбулентний.

туроулентнии. **turkey** see **1**. індик, **2**. Туреччина, **3**. індичка.

turn see 1. оберт, 2. повертати, 3. черга, 4. виток, 5. обертати, 6. обертатися, 7. повертатися, 8. поворот.

turner see 1. токар, 2. гімнаст, 3. гончар.

turning see 1. поворот, 2. токарний, 3. перехрестя.

turnover see 1. перекидання, 2. ОБЕРТ.

tutor see 1. репетитор, 2. вихователь.

twelfth see дванадцятий.

twelve see дванадцять.

twentieth see двадцятий.

twenty see двадцять.

twice see 1. двічі, 2. удвічі, 3. вдвоє, 4. вдвічі.

twin see 1. близнюк, 2. близнята.

**twist** *see* **1**. крутити, **2**. викручувати, **3**. крутіння, **4**. скручування.

**twisted** *see* **1**. сплетений, **2**. викривлений, **3**. ЗВИВИСТИЙ.

two see два.

**type** *see* **1**. тип, **2**. ДРУКУВАТИ, **3**. символ, **4**. вил.

typical see 1. типовий, 2. символічний. tyre see шина.

## U

ugly see 1. потворний, 2. бридкий, 3. НЕПРИЄМНИЙ, 4. ЗАГРОЗЛИВИЙ. ulcer see виразка. ultimate see 1. останній, 2. ЗАВЕРШУВАТИ, 3. unique see унікальний. МЕЖА, 4. ОСНОВНИЙ. unit see 1. одиниця, 2. ПІДРОЗДІЛ, 3. блок. ultimately see зрештою. united see 1. Дружний, 2. СПІЛЬНИЙ, 3. umbrella see 1. ЗОНТИК, 2. ПАРАСОЛЬКА. СПОЛУЧЕНИЙ. unity see 1. єдність, 2. ЗЛАГОДА, 3. спільність. unable see 1. нездатний, 2. НЕСПРОМОЖНИЙ. unacceptable see неприйнятний. universal see 1. універсальний, 2. всесвітній, 3. ЗАГАЛЬНИЙ. unaffected see щирий. uncertain see 1. сумнівний, 2. НЕВИЗНАЧЕНИЙ, universe see 1. BCCBIT, 2. KOCMOC. 3. НЕВПЕВНЕНИЙ, 4. МІНЛИВИЙ. university see університет. uncertainty see 1. невпевненість, 2. мінливість, 3. unknown see невідомий. НЕВІДОМІСТЬ. unlawful see незаконний. uncle see дядько. unlike see несхожий. unclear see неясний. unlikely see неправдоподібний. uncomfortable see 1. незручний, 2. тривожний. unlimited see 1. безмежний, 2. НЕОБМЕЖЕНИЙ. uncommon see 1. НЕЗВИЧНИЙ, 2. unmarried see неодружений. НЕЗВИЧАЙНИЙ, 3. НАДЗВИЧАЙНИЙ. unnecessary see непотрібний. unconscious see 1. МИМОВІЛЬНИЙ, 2. unofficial see неофіційний. непритомний, 3. НЕСВІДОМИЙ. unpleasant see неприємний. under see 1. під, 2. нижній. unpopular see непопулярний. underground see 1. підземний, 2. ПІДПІЛЬНИЙ, unprecedented see безпрецедентний. 3. таємно, 4. метрополітен, 5. МЕТРО. unreasonable see 1. нерозсудливий, 2. underlying see ОСНОВНИЙ. НАДМІРНИЙ, **3**. НЕРОЗУМНИЙ. undermine see 1. підмивати, 2. МІНУВАТИ, 3. unrest see 1. неспокій. 2. ЗАВОРУШЕННЯ. 3. ПІДКОПУВАТИ, 4. ПІДРИВАТИ. ЗАНЕПОКОЄННЯ, 4. хвилювання. underneath see 1. під. 2. внизу. unsatisfactory see незадовільний. understand see 1. зрозуміти, 2. розуміти, 3. unstable see 1. НЕПОСТІЙНИЙ, 2. НЕСТІЙКИЙ, припускати. 4. усвідомлювати. 5. ПОЧУТИ. 6. НЕТВЕРДИЙ. ЗДОГАДУВАТИСЯ. unsuccessful see 1. безуспішний, 2. НЕВДАЛИЙ, understandable see ЗРОЗУМІЛИЙ. 3. НЕВДАЧЛИВИЙ. understanding see 1. розуміння, 2. unsuitable see непридатний. ДОМОВЛЕНІСТЬ, 3. ЗГОДА, 4. розум (mind), unsure see невпевнений. 5. розумний (intelligent), 6. чуйний. unusual see 1. незвичайний, 2. ДИВНИЙ, 3. undertake see 1. починати, 2. ручатися. НАДЗВИЧАЙНИЙ. undertaking see 1. ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАННЯ, 2. unwanted see небажаний. ПІДПРИ€МСТВО. unwilling see HEOХОЧИЙ. undesirable see небажаний. upper see 1. верхній, 2. вищий. undoubtedly see безперечно. upright see 1. вертикальний, 2. ПІАНІНО, 3. uneasy see 1. неспокійний, 2. незручний. підпора, 4. ПРЯМОВИСНИЙ. unemployed see 1. безробітний, 2. безробітні, 3. upset see 1. перекидатися, 2. перекидання, 3. НЕЗАЙНЯТИЙ. ПЕРЕКИНУТИЙ, 4. перекидати, 5. unemployment see безробіття. ПАДІННЯ, 6. безладдя. uneven see 1. нерівний, 2. НЕВРІВНОВАЖЕНИЙ. upstairs see 1. нагорі, 2. ВГОРУ. unexpected see НЕПЕРЕДБАЧЕНИЙ. upwards see 1. більше, 2. угору. unexpectedly see НЕПЕРЕДБАЧЕНО. uranium see уран. unfair see 1. несправедливий, 2. urban see міський. НЕПРАВИЛЬНИЙ. 3. НЕЧЕСНИЙ. urge see 1. примушувати, 2. спонука, 3. unfamiliar see 1. незнайомий, 2. НЕЗВИЧНИЙ, 3. ПЕРЕКОНУВАТИ. 4. спонукати. НЕОБІЗНАНИЙ. urgency see 1. НАПОЛЕГЛИВІСТЬ, 2. unfortunate see 1. НЕВДАЛИЙ, 2. нещасний. терміновість. unhappy see 1. нещасливий, 2. НЕВДАЛИЙ. urgent see 1. терміновий, 2. НАГАЛЬНИЙ, 3. unification see уніфікація. НАПОЛЕГЛИВИЙ, 4. негайний, 5. спішний. uniform see 1. постійний, 2. ОДНОМАНІТНИЙ, urine see сеча. 3. ОДНОРІДНИЙ, 4. формений. us see Hac. union see 1. союз, 2. з'єднання, 3. об'єднання, 4. usage see 1. ПОВОДЖЕННЯ, 2. уживання, 3. спілка. ЗВИЧАЙ, 4. вживання, 5. ужиток.

use see 1. використовувати, 2. користь, 3. вживання, 4. використання, 5. використати, 6. уживати.

used see 1. старий (old), 2. використаний.

useful see 1. корисний, 2. успішний.

usefulness see КОРИСТЬ.

useless see 1. даремний, 2. марний, 3. непридатний.

user see 1. користувач, 2. споживач.

usual see звичайний.

usually see звичайно.

utility see 1. корисність, 2. користь, 3.

рентабельний, **4**. ДОПОМІЖНИЙ, **5**. вигода. **utter** *see* **1**. повний, **2**. вимовляти, **3**.

АБСОЛЮТНИЙ.

utterance see 1. висловлення, 2. висловлювання, 3. ДИКЦІЯ.

utterly see 1. зовсім, 2. НАДЗВИЧАЙНО.

## V

vacant see 1. вакантний, 2. незайнятий, 3. ПУСТИЙ, 4. вільний, 5. ПОРОЖНІЙ (еmpty). vacuum see 1. вакуум, 2. вакуумний, 3. пилосос. vague see 1. невизначений, 2. неясний, 3. невиразний.

vale see 1. Прощання, 2. Кювет.

valid see 1. дійсний, 2. чинний, 3. вагомий, 4. дійовий, 5. ОБҐРУНТОВАНИЙ, 6. справжній.

validation see 1. затвердження, 2. легалізація, 3. ратифікація.

validity see 1. чинність, 2. законність, 3. дійсність, 4. ОБҐРУНТОВАНІСТЬ, 5. вірність, 6. вагомість.

vallev see долина.

valuable see 1. КОШТОВНИЙ, 2. цінний.

valuation see оцінка.

value see 1. вартість, 2. значення, 3. ціна, 4. цінність, 5. цінувати, 6. оцінювати, 7. дорожити.

valve see клапан.

van see 1. фургон, 2. Авангард.

variable see 1. мінливий, 2. змінна, 3. змінний, 4. НЕПОСТІЙНИЙ, 5. ПЕРЕМІННИЙ.

variance see 1. зміна, 2. РОЗБІЖНІСТЬ.

variation see 1. різновид, 2. варіація, 3. відхилення, 4. ЗМІНА, 5. ПЕРЕМІНА, 6. варіант.

varied see 1. різний, 2. різноманітний, 3. розмаїтий, 4. строкатий.

variety see 1. різновид, 2. різноманітність, 3. безліч, 4. розходження, 5. розмаїтість.

various see 1. різний, 2. різнобічний.

vary see 1. мінятися, 2. відрізнятися, 3. ЗМІНЮВАТИСЯ, 4. МІНЯТИ, 5. різноманітити.

**vast** *see* **1**. широкий, **2**. ПРОСТОРИЙ (spacious), **3**. великий (big).

vat see 1. чан, 2. бочка.

vector see вектор.

**vegetable** *see* **1**. овочі, **2**. ОВОЧ, **3**. ОВОЧЕВИЙ, **4**. рослина, **5**. рослинний.

vegetation see 1. рослинність, 2. ЖИВОТІННЯ.

**vehicle** *see* **1**. ABTOMOБІЛЬ, **2**. AПАРАТ (apparatus).

vein see 1. вена, 2. жила, 3. ЖИЛКА, 4. НАСТРІЙ, 5. схильність.

velocity see 1. швидкість (speed), 2. бистрота.

velvet see 1. оксамит, 2. оксамитовий.

vendor see 1. продавець, 2. торговець.

ventilation see вентиляція.

venture see спекуляція.

verb see дієслово.

verbal see 1. усний, 2. словесний.

verdict see 1. вердикт, 2. судження.

verge see 1. край, 2. МЕЖА.

versatile see 1. різносторонній, 2. гнучкий.

verse see 1. вірш, 2. поезія.

version see 1. версія, 2. варіант, 3. ПЕРЕКЛАД. versus see проти.

vertical see 1. вертикальний, 2. прямовисний, 3. перпендикулярний.

very see 1. дуже, 2. справжній.

vessel see 1. судно, 2. посудина, 3. судина, 4. КОРАБЕЛЬ.

vet see 1. ветеринар, 2. ветеран.

via see через.

viable see життєздатний.

vicar see вікарій.

vicinity see 1. ОКОЛИЦІ, 2. ОКРУГА, 3. сусідство.

vicious see 1. ПОРОЧНИЙ, 2. хибний, 3. ЗЛИЙ.

victim see жертва.

victor see переможець.

victory see 1. перемога, 2. звитяга.

video see 1. відео, 2. телебачення (television).

view see 1. вид, 2. кругозір, 3. погляд, 4. пейзаж, 5. ОГЛЯДАТИ, 6. НАМІР (intent, intention), 7. вигляд, 8. бачити (see), 9. ДУМКА, 10. КРАЄВИД.

vigorous see 1. рішучий, 2. сильний, 3. ЕНЕРГІЙНИЙ.

villa see вілла.

village see село.

violence see насильство.

violent see 1. сильний, 2. насильний, 3. буйний, 4. ДУЖИЙ.

violently see 1. дуже, 2. сильно.

virgin see 1. діва, 2. дівочий, 3. цілинний. virtual see 1. віртуальний, 2. фактичний, 3. ДІЙСНИЙ (valid).

virtually see фактично.

**virtue** *see* **1**. доброчесність, **2**. цнотливість, **3**. чеснота, **4**. гідність.

virus see 1. вірус, 2. ОТРУТА (poison).

visible see 1. видимий, 2. ОЧЕВИДНИЙ (evident), 3. ПОМІТНИЙ, 4. явний.

vision see 1. зір (sight), 2. бачення, 3. МРІЯ, 4. проникливість, 5. проникнення.

visit see 1. відвідувати, 2. візит, 3. відвідати.

**visitor** *see* **1**. відвідувач, **2**. візитер, **3**. інспектор, **4**. гість.

**visual** *see* **1**. зоровий, **2**. візуальний, **3**. НАОЧНИЙ, **4**. ОПТИЧНИЙ.

visually see візуально.

vital see 1. життєвий, 2. НАСУЩНИЙ.

vitamin see вітамін.

vivid see 1. яскравий, 2. жвавий.

vocabulary see 1. словник, 2. лексика.

**vocal** *see* **1**. голосовий, **2**. усний, **3**. вокальний, **4**. гучний, **5**. ДЗВІНКИЙ.

voice see 1. голос, 2. висловлювати, 3. вимовляти. volatile see 1. леткий, 2. НЕПОСТІЙНИЙ.

volcanic see вулканічний.

voltage see НАПРУГА.

**volume** *see* **1**. том, **2**. ємність, **3**. об'єм, **4**. КНИГА (book), **5**. маса (mass), **6**. місткість.

voluntary see добровільний.

volunteer see 1. доброволець, 2. волонтер.

**vote** *see* **1**. голосувати, **2**. голосування, **3**. балотування, **4**. вотум, **5**. голос.

voting see голосування.

**voyage** *see* **1**. подорож (journey, trip), **2**. МАНДРІВКА, **3**. поїздка.

vulnerability see уразливість.

vulnerable see уразливий.

## W

wage see 1. ЗАРПЛАТА, 2. ЗДІЙСНЮВАТИ. waist see 1. талія, 2. ліф, 3. ПЕРЕХВАТ. wait see 1. чекати, 2. чекання, 3. очікувати, 4. ждати, 5. очікування. waiter see 1. офіціант, 2. ПІДНОС.

waiting see 1. чекання, 2. ПРИДВОРНИЙ, 3. ОБСЛУГОВУВАННЯ.

wake see 1. будити, 2. прокидатися, 3. ЗБУДЖУВАТИ, 4. КІЛЬВАТЕР, 5. ОПАМ'ЯТАТИСЯ, 6. усвідомити. walk see 1. ходити, 2. ходьба, 3. гуляти, 4. прогулянка, 5. стежка, 6. АЛЕЯ, 7. хода, 8. іти, 9. тротуар.

walker see ходак.

walking see 1. ПРОГУЛЯНКА, 2. хода.

wall see 1. стіна, 2. МУР.

wallet see 1. гаманець, 2. сумка, 3. бумажник, 4. торба.

wan see блідий.

wandering see 1. блукаючий, 2. ЗВИВИСТИЙ, 3. КОЧОВИЙ, 4. ПОВЗУЧИЙ, 5. ПОДОРОЖ (journey, trip).

want see 1. хотіти, 2. потреба, 3. бажати, 4. НУЖДА, 5. бракувати, 6. бідувати, 7. потребувати, 8. НЕОБХІДНІСТЬ.

war see війна.

ward see опіка.

wardrobe see 1. гардероб, 2. гардеробна, 3. шафа. warehouse see склад.

warfare see 1. війна, 2. боротьба.

warm see 1. теплий, 2. нагрівати.

warmth see 1. тепло, 2. ЗАПАЛЬНІСТЬ, 3. сердечність.

warn see 1. попереджати, 2. ЗАСТЕРІГАТИ. warning see попередження.

warrant see 1. гарантувати, 2. повноваження, 3. ПРАВОМОЧНІСТЬ, 4. ПОСВІДЧЕННЯ, 5. ручитися, 6. ОРДЕР, 7. виправдання, 8. ПІДСТАВА, 9. ПАТЕНТ (patent).

warren see Кролятник.

wary see 1. обережний, 2. ПІДОЗРІЛИЙ.

wash see 1. прати, 2. мити, 3. митися, 4. МИТТЯ, 5. болото, 6. АКВАРЕЛЬ.

washing see 1. миття, 2. ПРАННЯ, 3. білизна.

waste see 1. марнувати, 2. пустеля (desert), 3. втрата (loss), 4. ПОКИДЬКИ, 5. утиль, 6. убуток, 7. спустошувати, 8. сміття, 9. пустельний, 10. витрачати, 11. необроблений, 12. виснажуватися, 13. ЗБИТОК, 14. марнотратство, 15. відходи, 16. відпрацьований, 17. непотрібний.

wasting see 1. виснажливий, 2. спустошливий.

watch see 1. стежити, 2. годинник, 3. пильність, 4. пильнувати, 5. стерегти, 6. сторож, 7. чергувати, 8. спостереження, 9. ОХОРОНЯТИ, 10. ДИВИТИСЯ, 11. вартувати, 12. спостерігати, 13. чатувати.

water see 1. вода, 2. поливати, 3. ПОЛИТИ, 4. водний, 5. АКВАРЕЛЬ, 6. водяний.

wave see 1. хвиля, 2. майоріти, 3. махати, 4. хвилювати, 5. витися, 6. хвилюватися, 7. ПІДНЕСЕННЯ, 8. МАХНУТИ, 9. ЗАВИВАТИ, 10. колихатися.

way see 1. дорога, 2. шлях, 3. спосіб, 4. засіб, 5. ПУТЬ, 6. МЕТОД.

weak see 1. слабий, 2. слабкий, 3. НЕПЕРЕКОНЛИВИЙ, 4. НЕРІШУЧИЙ. weakness see 1. слабкість. 2. безсилля. 3. НЕПЕРЕКОНЛИВІСТЬ, 4. ПРИСТРАСТЬ, 5. wealth see 1. багатство, 2. достаток, 3. багатства. wealthy see 1. багатий, 2. заможний, 3. багачі. weapon see зброя. wear see 1. носитися, 2. протирати, 3. одяг, 4. СТОМЛЮВАТИ, 5. носіння, 6. наближатися, 7. зношувати, 8. зношування, 9. носити, 10. weary see 1. стомлений, 2. стомлюватися. weather see погода. web see 1. павутина, 2. ПАВУТИННЯ. wedding see 1. весільний, 2. весілля, 3. шлюб, 4. вінчання, 5. ОДРУЖЕННЯ. wee see крихітний. week see тиждень. weekly see 1. тижневий, 2. тижневик, 3. щотижня, 4. щотижневий. weight see 1. вага, 2. важити, 3. штанга, 4. тяжкість, 5. тягар. weird see фатальний. welcome see 1. вітати, 2. приємний, 3. бажаний, 4. ПРИЙОМ, 5. ПРИВІТАТИ, 6. гостинність, consider also 7. ласкаво просимо. welfare see 1. добробут, 2. благополуччя. well see 1. добре, 2. криниця, 3. ЗНАЧНО, 4. НУ, 5. розумно, 6. КОЛОДЯЗЬ, 7. здоровий, 8. ДУЖЕ, 9. ДЖЕРЕЛО (origin, source), 10. гарненько, 11. цілком, 12. гарно. west see 1. захід, 2. ЗАХІДНИЙ. western see 1. західний, 2. вестерн, 3. КОВБОЙСЬКИЙ. wet see 1. мокрий, 2. вологий, 3. мочити, 4. вологість. whatever see 1. будь-який, 2. який-небудь. whatsoever see будь-який. wheat see пшениця. wheel see 1. колесо, 2. КЕРМО, 3. ПРЯДКА. when see коли. where see 1. де, 2. куди, 3. звідки. whereas see ОСКІЛЬКИ. while see 1. доки, 2. поки, 3. час, 4. коли. **whip** see **1**. батіг, **2**. бичувати, **3**. ПЕРЕМОГТИ, **4**. розпалювати, 5. хлист. whisky see віскі. whisper see 1. шепотіти, 2. шепіт. whistle see 1. свисток, 2. свистіти, 3. свист, 4. свистати. white see 1. білий, 2. білизна. who see 1. хто, 2. КИМ, 3. КОМУ, 4. КОТРИЙ. whole see 1. весь, 2. цілий, 3. вся. wholesale see оптовий.

wholly see 1. цілком, 2. ПОВНІСТЮ.

why see 1. чому, 2. навіщо. wicked see 1. злий, 2. недобрий, 3. лихий, 4. wicket see 1. хвіртка, 2. турнікет. wide see 1. широкий, 2. ПРОСТОРИЙ (spacious), широко. widely see широко. widow see вдова. width see 1. ширина, 2. широта, 3. смуга. wife see 1. дружина, 2. жінка. wild see 1. дикий, 2. лякливий, 3. шалений. wilderness see 1. глушина, 2. ПУСТЕЛЯ (desert). will see 1. воля, 2. хотіти, 3. заповіт, 4. бажати, 5. ЕНЕРГІЯ, 6. заповідати, 7. бажання, 8. веліти. willing see 1. готовий, 2. охочий, 3. ДОБРОВІЛЬНИЙ, 4. старанний, 5. схильний. willingness see готовність. win see 1. вигравати, 2. перемагати, 3. перемога (victory), **4**. виграш, **5**. заробляти, **6**. виграти. wind see 1. вітер, 2. МОТАТИ, 3. ПОВОРОТ, 4. ОБЕРТ, 5. ПРОВІТРЮВАТИ, 6. НАМОТУВАТИ, 7. ЗАПАХ, 8. виток, 9. витися, 10. ДИХАННЯ, 11. МЕТЕОРИЗМ. window see 1. вікно, 2. вітрина. wine see вино. wing see 1. крило, 2. окрилювати, 3. стулка. winner see переможець. winning see 1. виграш, 2. ЗАВОЮВАННЯ. winter see 1. зима, 2. зимувати. wipe see 1. витирати, 2. витирання. wire see 1. дріт, 2. телеграма, 3. телеграфувати, 4. провід. wisdom see мудрість. wise see 1. мудрий, 2. розумний (intelligent), 3. ЗНАЮЧИЙ, 4. розсудливий, 5. спосіб. wish see 1. бажання, 2. бажати, 3. хотіти, 4. побажання. wit see 1. розум (mind), 2. ум, 3. дотепник, 4. дотепність. witch see 1. чаклунка, 2. відьма, 3. ворожка, 4. чародійка. with see 1. з, 2. у (in), 3. через, 4. від, 5. ЗІ, 6. із. withdraw see 1. АНУЛЮВАТИ, 2. вилучати, 3. відводити, 4. відкликати, 5. відмовлятися. withdrawal see 1. відведення, 2. відкликання, 3. ЗНІМАННЯ, 4. відхід, 5. вилучення, 6. ЗАБИРАННЯ. within see 1. всередині, 2. ПРОТЯГОМ. witness see 1. свідок, 2. свідчити, 3. свідчення, 4. ДОКАЗ, 5. ЗАСВІДЧУВАТИ, 6. ОЧЕВИДЕЦЬ, 7. ПРИКЛАД. woman see 1. жінка, 2. баба, 3. ЖІНКИ. wonder see 1. дивуватися, 2. цікавитися, 3. ЗДИВУВАННЯ, 4. ПОДИВ, 5. чудо. wonderful see 1. чудовий, 2. чудесний, 3. дивовижний, 4. ПРЕКРАСНИЙ, 5. ДИВНИЙ.

wood see 1. ліс, 2. деревина, 3. дерево (tree), 4. дрова, 5. гай, 6. ДЕРЕВ'ЯНИЙ, 7. лісоматеріал.

wooden see дерев'яний.

wool see 1. вовна, 2. шерсть.

woollen see шерстяний.

word see 1. слово, 2. обіцянка (promise), 3. формулювати.

wording see редакція.

work see 1. робота, 2. працювати, 3. праця, 4. твір, **5**. труд, **6**. робити (make), **7**. роботи, **8**. ДІЯТИ, 9. дія, 10. служити.

worker see 1. працівник, 2. робітник.

working see 1. робота (work), 2. робочий, 3. ДІЮЧИЙ, 4. ДІЯ, 5. ЕКСПЛУАТАЦІЯ, 6. ОБРОБКА.

works see завод.

workshop see 1. майстерня, 2. цех.

world see 1. cBit, 2. BCCCBit.

worldwide see 1. всесвітній, 2. світовий.

worry see 1. турбота, 2. журитися, 3. КЛОПІТ, 4. розтерзання, **5**. тривога (anxiety), **6**. турбувати.

worse see 1. гірший, 2. гірше. worship see 1. культ, 2. ОБОЖНЮВАТИ, 3. шанування.

worst see 1. найгірший, 2. найгірше.

worth see 1. вартість (value), 2. цінність, 3. вартий, 4. гідність.

worthy see 1. гідний, 2. достойний, 3. відповідний (appropriate), 4. вартий.

wound see 1. рана, 2. поранити, 3. ранити, 4.

wretched see 1. нещасний, 2. ЖАЛЮГІДНИЙ, 3. ЖАХЛИВИЙ. 4. МЕРЗЕННИЙ.

wrist see зап'ясток.

writ see 1. ПОВІСТКА, 2. НАКАЗ, 3. ОРДЕР.

write see 1. писати, 2. виписати, 3. виражати, 4. НАПИСАТИ.

writer see 1. письменник, 2. автор (author).

writing see 1. письмо, 2. документ, 3. почерк, 4. лист, 5. НАПИС.

written see 1. написаний, 2. письмовий.

wrong see 1. неправильний, 2. помилковий, 3. зло, 4. НЕСПРАВЕДЛИВИЙ, 5.

ПРАВОПОРУШЕННЯ, 6. ФАЛЬШИВИЙ.

vellow see 1. жовтий, 2. ЖОВТОК.

yes see так.

vesterday see 1. vyopa, 2. byopa.

yet see 1. досі, 2. уже, 3. ще, 4. НАВІТЬ, 5. ОДНАК, 6. ПРОТЕ.

yield see 1. давати, 2. урожай, 3. улов, 4. текучість, 5. розтягуватися, 6. ПРУЖИНИТИ, 7. ПОСТУПАТИСЯ, 8. плоди, 9. ПІДДАВАТИСЯ, 10. ДЕБІТ, 11. виробляти,

**12**. виробіток, **13**. видобуток, **14**. ДОХІД. young see 1. молодий, 2. молодший, 3. юний.

youngster see 1. хлопець (boy), 2. хлопчик, 3. юнак.

vours see 1. ваш, 2. твій.

youth see 1. юнак, 2. юність, 3. молодість, 4. молодь, 5. юнацтво.

youthful see 1. юний, 2. юнацький, 3. ранній, 4. молодий, 5. новий.

zero see 1. нуль, 2. ніщо, 3. зеро. zone see 1. зона, 2. район, 3. ПАСОК, 4. ПОЯС.

## Υ

yacht see яхта. yard see 1. ярд, 2. двір, 3. ПОДВІР'Я, 4. город. yarn see пряжа. yeah see так. year see pik.

# Vocabulary Study Lists

# Verbs (Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) - English)

адаптувати adapt АНУЛЮВАТИ withdraw брак reject бути exist absorb вбирати вважати suppose ввести introduce ввійти enter вводити introduce везти carry вибирати choose вивчати learn learn вивчити видаватися appear видозмінювати alter видужувати recover survive виживати вижити survive визнавати admit визнати acknowledge determine визначати ВИКЛИКАТИ create виключати exclude exclude виключити виконувати carry викривати reveal вилучати withdraw вимагати require винагороджувати compensate виражати convev вирішити decide вирішувати choose

вирости grow вирощувати grow вислуховувати hear виступати appear висувати promote витримувати tolerate appear виходити виявляти reveal відбирати rob відбуватися occur відбудовувати restore відбудувати restore відводити withdraw відкидати denv відкинути reject withdraw відкликати discover відкривати відмовляти denv відмовлятися withdraw вілновлювати recover refer відноситись відправляти send відпускати dismiss відрізнити distinguish відрізняти distinguish відрізнятися differ відхиляти reject відшкодовувати compensate відшкодувати compensate включати include admit вмішати вносити contribute возити carry впливати react admit впускати враховувати consider define встановлювати вступати enter вступити enter interfere втручатися enter входити think гадати гарантувати ensure гнатися pursue become годитися грабувати rob

ДАВАТИ deny provide заперечувати demonstrate ask демонструвати ЗАПИТУВАТИ ЗАПОЗИЧУВАТИ дізнаватися learn adopt ДІЗНАТИСЯ learn introduce запроваджувати invite ЗАПРОСИТИ діставати get **ДОБИВАТИСЯ** obtain ЗАПРОШУВАТИ ask ДОБУВАТИ obtain заробляти earn ДОВІДАТИСЯ learn ЗАСВОЮВАТИ adopt ДОВІДУВАТИСЯ discover ЗАСІЛАТИ sit ЗАСЛУГОВУВАТИ доводити demonstrate earn ДОГЛЯДАТИ tend ЗАСНОВУВАТИ promote дозволяти admit ЗАСТЕРІГАТИ warn **ДОМАГАТИСЯ** obtain **ЗАСТОСОВУВАТИ** practise ДОПОМАГАТИ застосовуватися obtain promote ДОПУСКАТИ retain suppose зберігати admit збирати collect допустити examine ЗБІЛЬШУВАТИ enhance досліджувати дослідити ЗЫЛЬШУВАТИСЯ investigate grow доставляти bring ЗВАЖАТИ include лосягати achieve ЗВЕРТАТИСЯ refer досягти achieve звільняти dismiss доходити come ЗГАДАТИ remember ДУМАТИ imagine згадувати remember thank дякувати злаватися seem **ЗЛЕРЖУВАТИ** екзаменувати examine retain **ЗЛІЙСНИТИ** ЖЛАТИ expect realize ЖЕРТВУВАТИ ЗДІЙСНЮВАТИ contribute practise **ЗДОБУВАТИ** exist жити acquire забезпечувати provide ЗЛОГАЛУВАТИСЯ imagine ЗМАГАТИСЯ забувати forget compete ЗАБУТИ **ЗМАЛЬОВУВАТИ** describe forget interfere **ЗМІНЮВАТИ** alter ЗАВАЖАТИ ЗАВЕРШУВАТИ fulfil ЗМІНЮВАТИСЯ alter ЗАГОТОВЛЯТИ provide змінятися alter загрожувати threaten ЗМІЦНЮВАТИ strengthen ЗАЗНАВАТИ suffer ЗНАЙОМИТИ introduce ЗАЙМАТИСЯ ЗНЕВАЖАТИ pursue ignore залежати depend зникати disappear ЗАМІНИТИ replace **ЗНИКНУТИ** disappear ЗАМІНЮВАТИ **ЗОБРАЖАТИ** replace describe заміняти replace зрікатися deny ЗАМІШАТИ ЗУСТРІЧАТИСЯ replace occur ЗАПАМ'ЯТАТИ remember з'явитися appear ЗАПАСАТИ provide з'являтися appear ЗАПЕВНЯТИ convince З'ЯСОВУВАТИСЯ emerge ЗАПЕРЕЧИТИ denv ігнорувати ignore

ідентифікувати identify ОБМІРКОВУВАТИ think ілюструвати demonstrate ОБУМОВЛЮВАТИ determine calculate іменник noun ОБЧИСЛЮВАТИ інспектувати inspect ОВОЛОЛІВАТИ acquire інтерпретувати interpret ОГЛЯДАТИ inspect ІСНУВАТИ obtain ОГЛЯНУТИ examine їсти eat одержати obtain КАЛЬКУЛЮВАТИ calculate одержувати get КАСТРУВАТИ alter resist опиратися КОЛЕКШОНУВАТИ collect ОПИСАТИ describe compensate describe компенсувати описувати render конкурувати compete оплата ОПОДАТКОВУВАТИ assess КОНСУЛЬТУВАТИ advise КОРИСТУВАТИСЯ participate ототожнювати identify have отримувати obtain мати МІНЯТИ vary ОЦІНИТИ evaluate мінятися ОЦІНЮВАТИ assess vary think МІРКУВАТИ очікувати expect МІСТИТИ include пам'ятати remember НАБИРАТИ assume ПЕРЕВОЗИТИ carry НАБЛИЖАТИ ПЕРЕДАВАТИ anticipate convey НАБРИЛАТИ interfere передбачати anticipate ПЕРЕДЧУВАТИ anticipate набувати acquire набути obtain ПЕРЕЙМАТИ adopt навчати learn перекладати interpret НАВ'ЯЗУВАТИ impose ПЕРЕКЛАСТИ interpret надавати lend ПЕРЕКОНАЙТЕ persuade НАДІЯТИСЯ ПЕРЕКОНАТИ persuade expect НАДОЛУЖУВАТИ recover convince переконувати НАЗИВАТИ ПЕРЕНОСИТИ qualify carry належати belong ПЕРЕРОБЛЯТИ adapt НАМАГАТИСЯ seek ПЕРЕСЛАТИ send НАПОЛЯГАТИ insist переслідувати pursue НАРІКАТИ complain перетворити transform НАСТАВАТИ come перетворювати transform НАСТОЮВАТИ insist ask питати непокоїти disturb ПІДВИЩУВАТИ enhance submit нести carry піддавати ПІДКОРЯТИСЯ conform посити carry ОБГОВОРЮВАТИ consider calculate підраховувати ОБДУМУВАТИ contemplate ПІДСИЛИТИ strengthen choose підсилювати strengthen обирати ОБКЛАДАТИ ПІДСИЛЮВАТИСЯ impose strengthen ОБКРАДАТИ rob ПІДТВЕРДЖУВАТИ acknowledge ОБМАНЮВАТИ impose ПІЗНАВАТИ identify обмежувати restrict піклуватися tend

render remember ПРИГАДАТИ платити ПОВЕРТАТИ replace remember ПРИГАДУВАТИ ПОВІДОМЛЯТИ ПРИГАНЯТИ convev adapt поглинати absorb ПРИДБАТИ get ПОГОДЖУВАТИСЯ accept ПРИДУМУВАТИ think ПОГРОЖУВАТИ **ПРИЗВОЛИТИ** threaten bring ПОДАВАТИ prefer ПРИЗНАЧАТИ constitute поділяти participate ПРИЇЖДЖАТИ come think ПРИЇЗЛИТИ ПОЛУМАТИ come ПРИЇХАТИ arrive ПОЛЯКУВАТИ thank rob ПОЗБАВЛЯТИ приймати accept прийняти lend позичати accept позичити lend ПРИЙТИ come **ПОКАЗУВАТИ** demonstrate приладжувати adapt показуватися appear принести bring ПОКЛАДАТИСЯ приносити depend bring ПОКРАЩУВАТИ ПРИПИСУВАТИ refer improve полишити improve припускати admit admit поліпшувати improve припустити ПОМІЧАТИ detect ПРИСКОРЮВАТИ anticipate пом'якшувати modify ПРИСТОСОВУВАТИ conform попереджати warn пристосовуватися adapt попросити ask ПРИСТОСУВАТИ adapt ПОРАДИТИ advise приходити come ПОРУШУВАТИ disturb пробачати forgive refer ПОСИЛАТИ ПРОВІШАТИ predict посилатися refer проводити accompany посилити strengthen продавати realize reinforce ПОСИЛЮВАТИ ПРОЛОВЖУВАТИ carry ПОСЛАТИ send пропадати disappear provide постачати пропонувати suggest suffer ПОСТРАЖДАТИ ПРОРОКУВАТИ predict поступатися admit просити ask потребувати require ПРОСЛАВЛЯТИ celebrate derive ПРОСУВАТИ походити promote починати begin противитися oppose почути hear ПРОТИЛІЯТИ react появлятися ПРОТИСТАВЛЯТИ appear oppose пояснити explain протистояти resist explain ПРОЧИТАНИЙ read пояснювати ПРАКТИКУВАТИСЯ practise read прочитати проявляти представляти introduce demonstrate проявлятися ПРИБУВАТИ come appear прибути arrive recommend радити ПРИВЕСТИ react bring реагувати приводити bring реалізувати realize

рекомендувати recommend реставрувати restore РІЗНИТИСЯ differ різноманітити varv become робитися розвивати develop розглядати consider роз'їдати eat розпізнавати identify distinguish розпізнати relate розповідати relate розповісти розраховувати calculate розрізнити distinguish розрізняти distinguish РОЗРОБЛЯТИ develop розслідувати detect think розуміти розходитися dismiss рости grow undertake ручатися towel рушник садовити sit reveal свідчити святкувати celebrate сидіти sit сісти sit скаржитися complain constitute складати hear слухати СЛУХАТИСЯ listen спитати ask співробітничати contribute спливати emerge сповішати advise споглялати contemplate сподіватися expect induce спонукати receive сприймати contribute сприяйте сприяти promote deny спростовувати спрямовувати refer ставати come стати become СТВОРИТИ create

створювати create suffer страждати страхувати ensure супроводжувати accompany супроводити accompany творити create терпіти tolerate тлумачити explain convev транспортувати transform трансформувати come траплятися тренувати practise тренуватися practise турбувати disturb **УВОДИТИ** introduce assume удавати УДОСКОНАЛЮВАТИ develop conform узгоджуватися умовити persuade умовляти persuade avoid уникати acknowledge усвідомлювати усиновити adopt *<u>усиновляти</u>* adopt **УСМОКТУВАТИ** absorb retain утримувати ухилятися avoid учити learn learn учитися imagine уявляти характеризувати define хвилювати disturb ХВИЛЮВАТИСЯ create чекати expect читати read hear чути штрафувати assess seek шукати

avoid

# Verbs (English - Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script))

absorb поглинати ПРИЙНЯТИ accept accompany супроводити achieve ДОБИВАТИСЯ acknowledge усвідомлювати acquire ЗДОБУВАТИ ПЕРЕРОБЛЯТИ adapt admit дозволяти adopt приймати advise сповіщати КАСТРУВАТИ alter anticipate НАБЛИЖАТИ appear з'являтися arrive ПРИЇХАТИ ask ДОВІДУВАТИСЯ assess ОПОДАТКОВУВАТИ assume вважати

ухилятися

become стати begin починати належати belong ПЕРЕКОНУВАТИ bring calculate КАЛЬКУЛЮВАТИ виконувати carry celebrate святкувати choose обирати collect збирати come ПРИБУВАТИ compensate винагороджувати compete ЗМАГАТИСЯ complain НАРІКАТИ comply ПІДКОРЯТИСЯ conform consider

conform ПІДКОРЯТИСЯ
consider ОБГОВОРЮВАТИ
constitute ПРИЗНАЧАТИ
contemplate МІРКУВАТИ
contribute вносити
convey виражати
convince ЗАПЕВНЯТИ
create ВИКЛИКАТИ

decide вирішити define визначати ПОКАЗУВАТИ demonstrate deny відкидати depend залежати derive ОДЕРЖУВАТИ describe ЗМАЛЬОВУВАТИ detect розслідувати ОБУМОВЛЮВАТИ determine develop розвивати

differ відрізнятися disappear **ЗНИКНУТИ** discover виявляти dismiss розходитися distinguish відрізняти disturb ПОРУШУВАТИ earn заробляти eat їсти emerge сппивати enhance ПІДВИЩУВАТИ

ensure гарантувати enter вступити evaluate оцінювати examine досліджувати exclude виключати exist бути сподіватися expect explain пояснювати forget забувати forgive пробачати ЗАВЕРШУВАТИ fulfil діставати get рости grow happen відбуватися have мати hear вислуховувати identify розпізнавати

impose ОПОДАТКОВУВАТИ improve поліпшувати include ЗВАЖАТИ induce спонукати insist **НАПОЛЯГАТИ** inspect інспектувати interfere втручатися interpret інтерпретувати introduce ЗНАЙОМИТИ

ЗНЕВАЖАТИ

уявляти

ignore

imagine

investigate досліджувати ЗАПРОСИТИ invite learn **ДОВІДАТИСЯ** lend надавати listen СЛУХАТИСЯ modify пом'якшувати noun ІСНУВАТИ obtain відбуватися occur oppose противитися КОРИСТУВАТИСЯ participate ПЕРЕКОНАТИ persuade practise ЗАСТОСОВУВАТИ predict ПРОВІЩАТИ prefer ПОДАВАТИ висувати promote ПРИПУСКАТИ propose ЛАВАТИ provide ЗАЙМАТИСЯ pursue визначати qualify react впливати

ЗАЗНАВАТИ suffer suggest пропонувати suppose гадати survive виживати tend ДОГЛЯДАТИ thank дякувати think розуміти threaten загрожувати tolerate витримувати towel рушник transform видозмінювати undertake починати мінятися vary warn попереджати withdraw відмовлятися

### read ПРОЧИТАНИЙ realize виконувати receive одержувати recommend висувати recover НАДОЛУЖУВАТИ ЗВЕРТАТИСЯ refer reinforce ПІДСИЛЮВАТИ reject відкидати relate розповісти ПРИГАДУВАТИ remember render оплата ЗАМІШАТИ replace require потребувати

відмовлятися

відбудовувати

обмежувати

зберігати

викривати

опиратися

resign

resist

restore

restrict

retain

reveal

rob

seek

seem

send

strengthen

submit

sit

### аборт abortion АБСОРБШЯ absorption **АВАРІЙНИЙ** jury АВАРІЯ accident Авеню avenue **АВІАКОМПАНІЯ** airline АВІАЛІНІЯ airline **АВІАНОСЕЦЬ** carrier АВІАПІЯ aircraft **АВТОМАГІСТРАЛЬ** motorway автомобіль car автор writer АГЕНТ broker агонія agony АГРЕГАТ assembly

aggression

Nouns (Ukrainian (Cyrillic

Script) - English)

грабувати агресія aggression НАМАГАТИСЯ адвокат lawyer злаватися administrator адміністратор ПЕРЕСЛАТИ аероплан aeroplane ЗАСІЛАТИ аеропорт airport підсилювати азот nitrogen піддавати академія academy

АГРЕСИВНІСТЬ

atmosphere акр acre атмосфера АКСЕСУАРИ АТРАКЦІОН attraction accessories АКТИВ outsider assets аутсайдер активація activation баба grandmother АКТИВНІСТЬ grandmother activity бабуся багаж актор player luggage актриса actress багажник carrier АКЦЕНТ emphasis багатозначність significance АКШОНЕР shareholder багатство means база Алея avenue basis алкоголь alcohol базис basis альбом album балерина dancer Альфа alpha балет ballet альянс alliance балкон balcony алюміній aluminium банкір banker алюміній aluminium банкрутство bankruptcy амбінія ambition saloon бар **АМЕРИКАНЦІ** nation барак hut аналітик analyst баран sheep **АНАЛОГІЯ** correspondence бард singer янкетя questionnaire бар'єр barrier AHOHC advertisement басейн basin антитіло antibody батист lawn AHTPAKT батьки parents interval безладдя антропологія anthropology confusion безліч анулювання cancellation abundance безолня depth апарат apparatus АПАРАТУРА безпека apparatus safety АПТЕКАР chemist безперебійність continuity безперервність ap are continuity arbitration арбітраж безпечність safety аргумент argument безробіття unemployment АРГУМЕНТАШЯ argument безсердечність cruelty арена arena бекон bacon **АРЕШТОВАНИЙ** prisoner белетристика fiction аристократія aristocracy бензин petrol conversation аркуш sheet бесіла бидло аромат odour cattle бібліотека Арсенал arsenal library article librarian артикль бібліотекар біблія bible артилерія artillery бізнесмен businessman археологія archaeology білизна архітектор architect clothes АСАМБЛЕЯ assembly біноклі binoculars АСИГНУВАННЯ allocation binoculars бінокль астма asthma біографія biography

біологія biology важливість magnitude благословення blessing валізка suitcase близькість neighbourhood ванна bathroom блок unit вантаження shipping блокнот notebook вапняк limestone блукач rover варіант variation variation богохульство oath варіація боєприпаси ammunition вбрання clothes боєць fighter вдягання dressing божіння oath влячність gratitude boiler transaction бойлер ведення болото marsh вектор vector бондар magnitude cooper велич борг debt величина quantity defender вентиляція ventilation борець debtor porch боржник веранда боротьба warfare вердикт verdict heath бочка vat верес БРАЗИЛІЯ version brazil версія бразілія brazil верстат machine брама gate вертоліт helicopter брат brother верхів'я source бригада brigade вершина summit брова brow взаємодія interaction брокер broker взірець specimen brochure брошура виборці constituency брошюра booklet вигалка fiction бруківка pavement вигола convenience будівля construction виготовлення production builder виготовлювач manufacturer будівник будівництво construction вил perspective будка cabin вилавень editor видавничий будова construction publishing construction будування видання publication буклет booklet видобуток production modification wallet вилозміна бумажник бунгало survival bungalow виживання rebellion confession бунт визнання буржуазія визначення identification bourgeoisie abortion буфет canteen викидень бюлетень bulletin виклад statement bureau викладач teacher бюро бюрократія виключення exclusion bureaucracy вагомість validity виконання fulfilment вагон car використання exploitation вагонетка car викреслювання cancellation

demonstration вимагання requirement виав dimension detection вимір виявлення вимова pronunciation вівтар altar вимовляння вівні sheep pronunciation RiBIIG вимога requirement sheep guilt відбиток impression виня винагорода payment відбудова reconstruction винахід invention відвідувач visitor ВИНАХІДЛИВІСТЬ invention вілланість allegiance виняток exception відділ bureau випадковість accident відділення department випадок event віддушина outlet виправдання plea відібрання deprivation виправлення amendment відкриття revelation prominence absence випуклість відлучка випуск edition відміна abolition відмінність distinction вираження expression відмова denial вираз expression виразність emphasis відновлення renewal виріб product вілношення ratio solution відомості data вирішення виробник producer відомство department виробництво production вілповілальність accountability вілповілність вирок judgement correspondence вирушання outset відпочинок recreation висалка landing відродження renaissance відрядження вислів expression assignment висловлення відсоток utterance percent utterance висловлювання відставка resignation висновок відсутність conclusion absence height variation висота відхилення висоти height відхід recession височина height відчуття perception виставка exhibition відшкодування indemnity виставляння візитер visitor exposure виступ projection візник carter витівка device візок car витонченість війна sophistication warfare виторг proceeds вік century витрата expenditure вікарій vicar вікно window витрачання expenditure вілля villa витяг extraction витягування extension вільшанка robin вихіл outcome вірність validity education виховання reliability вірогідність counsellor вихователь віросповідання cult

вірус virus вчений scientist вірш вчинення commitment poem ambassador teacher вісник вчитель вісь axis в'язання knitting вітальня salon в'язень prisoner вітрина window газета organ indication вказівка газон lawn вклад contribution гайка nut вкладник investor gallery галерея comprehension domain включення галузь wallet вкриття coping гаманень ганок влада domination porch proprietor гараж власник garage властивість affinity гарантія assurance вміст contents wardrobe гардероб wardrobe вмістилище container гардеробна внесок contribution гарячка fever ROBHS wool гелікоптер helicopter водень hydrogen ген gene волій driver географія geography водойма basin геологія geology reservoir водосховише гериогство duchy гігієна вождь leader hygiene вокаліст musician гімнаст turner вологість moisture гіпотеза hypothesis mistress гіркота bitterness володарка володарювання sovereignty гість visitor володіння domain гласність publicity волокно fibre глибина depth hostility глибочінь ворожість depth ворота entry глобус sphere dominance глюкоза glucose вплив гнучкість flexibility враження impression врода beauty година hour вручення commitment голова president всесвіт universe головування presidency встановлення institution голод famine admission вступ голос organ втілення creation гомосексуалізм homosexuality втіха consolation гонитва pursuit вторгнення invasion гончар turner deprivation nut втрата горіх втягування involvement городник gardener node вузол господар proprietor Byxo canon Госполь lord вхід admission гостинність hospitality

ДЕТАЛЬ specification inn готель willingness detector готовність детектор ДЕФІНІЦІЯ definition player гравець ДЕФІЦИТ shortage грамотність literacy boundary ДЕФОРМАЦІЯ alteration границя грань basil джерело source earl sofa граф диван графство ДИКТОР county speaker гріх guilt **ДИКШЯ** utterance ГРОМАДЯНСТВО nationality димар chimney груди chest ДИМОХІД chimney грузовик lorry дипломатія diplomacy грунт earth **ЛИРЕКТИВИ** directions batch ДИРЕКТОР група manager liver ДИСЕРТАЦІЯ thesis гурман ГУСТИНА density disk диск density ДИСКУСІЯ густота argument ДАМА **ДИСПЕТЧЕР** dame operator дані data дитина child лантист dentist литя child door breath двері дихання **ДВІР** courtyard діагноз diagnosis двоокис dioxide діаметр diameter butler Дворецький лівчина girl debtor **ДЕБІТОР** дівчинка girl **ДЕБЮТ** debut дід grandfather ДЕБЮТУВАТИ debut grandfather дідусь ДІ€ВІСТЬ devaluation effectiveness девальвація **ДЕГУСТАТОР** verb cooper дієслово ДЕКАН dean дійсність validity ДЕКОРАЦІЇ scenery діловитість enterprise ДЕЛЕГАТ spokesman ДІЛЯНКА sector делегація delegation дітише child **ДЕЛЕГУВАННЯ** delegation дія operation дельфін dolphin ДІЯЛЬНІСТЬ activity демократ democrat лоба era demonstration **ДОБРОБУТ** демонстрація success доброзичливість день day kindness **ДЕПО** depot ДОБРОТА kindness депресія depression довід argument ДЕПУТАЦІЯ delegation довідник dictionary **ДОВІЧНИЙ ЛЕРЖАВА** nation life ДЕРЖАК holder ДОГЛЯДАЧ keeper **ДЕРЖАТЕЛЬ** holder ДОГМА doctrine decade десятиріччя ДОГМАТ formula **ДЕСЯТОК** decade договір treaty

ДОДАТОК enclosure ЕКСПЛУАТАТОР sweater **ДОКАЗ** argument ЕКСПЛУАТАЦІЯ operation доктрина doctrine **ЕКСПОЗИЦІЯ** exposure документ writing електрон electron документація documentation ЕЛЕМЕНТ member ЕНЕРГІЯ долар dollar activity долина vallev ензим enzyme **ДОМОВЛЕНІСТЬ** agreement епізод episode **ДОНЬКА** daughter ЕПОХА day доповідач speaker epa era assistance **ЕСКАДРА** squadron допомога допущення admission ЕСКАДРОН squadron ДОРЕЧНІСТЬ ЕТИКА fitness morality ДОРОГА avenue ЕТИКИ ethics доручення mission ефективність effectiveness nuisance єдність unity досада досконалість perfection жаба frog victim дослідження investigation жертва ЖЕРТОВНИК дослідник researcher altar достаток abundance ЖЕСТ movement живописець admission доступ painter **ДОСЯГНЕННЯ** arrival животіння vegetation житло дохід revenue habitat дочка daughter життя existence драма drama жовч bile **ДРЕСИРУВАННЯ** education жовчність bile друк printing жорстокість cruelty printer ЖУРНАЛІСТ journalist друкар ДРУКУВАННЯ журналістика impression journalism ЖЮРІ дудар piper jury ДУДНИК piper забава amusement духовенство clergy заборона prohibition ДУХОВКА забруднення contamination oven **ЛУШОК** odour ЗАВЛАННЯ problem ЗАВЕРШЕННЯ дядько uncle fulfilment ляк lecturer ЗАВОД factory еволюційний ЗАВОРУШЕННЯ evolutionary unrest ЕВОЛЮШЯ development завоювання conquest **ЕКЗЕМПЛЯР** ЗАГЛИБЛЕНІСТЬ specimen absorption ЗАГЛИБЛЕННЯ екіпаж crew recession екологія заголовок ecology heading економіка economics threat загроза економіст ЗАД economist arse економка housekeeper задача problem ЕКСПАНСІЯ expansion заловолення enjoyment експертиза expertise ЗАДУМ conception

defender ЗАЗДРІСТЬ jealousy захисник defence ЗАЗІХАННЯ invasion захист ЗАКІНЧЕННЯ ЗАХИСТОК leaving asylum заклопотаність 399R9 statement preoccupation confusion закон law збентеження ЗАКОНИ **ЗБЕРЕЖЕННЯ** legislation preservation законність validity ЗБЕРІГАННЯ preservation законодавство ЗБИРАННЯ collection legislation ЗАКОНОМІРНІСТЬ legitimacy ЗБИРАЧ collector ЗАЛ **ЗБІЛЬШЕННЯ** saloon accession **ЗАЛИШЕННЯ** ЗБІР leaving assembly залишок remainder збірка collection залізниця railway збірник corpus ЗАЛУЧЕННЯ implication **ЗБОРИ** session ЗАМИКАННЯ enclosure зброя weapon ЗАМППАННЯ confusion **ЗБУДЖЕННЯ** stimulation замовник customer marketing збут ЗАНЕПАД depression звитяга victory **ЗАНЕПОКОЄННЯ** unrest звичай convention ЗАНЕСЕННЯ ЗВІЛЬНЕННЯ immunity entry ЗАНЯТТЯ ЗВ'ЯЗКІВЕШЬ pursuit operator **ЗАОХОЧЕННЯ** promotion зв'язок relationship **ЗАОЩАДЖЕННЯ** savings згола agreement запальничка lighter ЗГУШЕННЯ concentration ЗАПАЛЮВАЧ lighter ЗДАВЛЮВАННЯ compression запах odour ЗЛАТНІСТЬ ability ЗАПЕВНЕННЯ assurance astonishment здивування ЗАПЕРЕЧЕННЯ **ЗДІБНІСТЬ** exception ability ЗАПИТ implementation enquiry здійснення ЗАПЛІЛНЕННЯ **ЗЛОБИЧ** conception trophy ЗАПЛУТАНІСТЬ ЗЕМЛЕВЛАСНИК complexity landlord ЗАПОБІГАННЯ ЗЕМЛЕМІР preservation surveyor ЗАПУСК launching землеробство agriculture ЗАРАЖЕННЯ contamination ЗЕМЛЕУСТРІЙ planning ЗАРОБІТОК income earth зем пя ЗАРПЛАТА salary ЗЕМЛЯК brother ЗАСЕЛЕННЯ terrain settlement земний 3EHIT zaciñ recipe summit засілання session з'єлнання junction ЗАСНУВАННЯ foundation ЗІБРАННЯ assembly **ЗАСТЕРЕЖЕННЯ** reservation ЗІЗНАННЯ confession ЗАСТІЙ depression з'їзд conference **ЗАСУДЖЕННЯ** ЗЛАГОДА conviction unity ЗАТВЕРДЖЕННЯ approval злиття merger **ЗЛОЧИН ЗАТВЕРДІННЯ** consolidation offence ЗМАГАННЯ затримка retention competition

**ЗМЕНШЕННЯ** depression ін'єкпія injection ЗМІНА alteration інкубатор nursery 3MICT meat інспектор visitor **ЗМІШНЕННЯ** consolidation інструктор instructor змішування mixture інструкції instructions ЗНАТНІСТЬ distinction інструмент apparatus знахідка finding інтервал interval значення significance інтерпретація interpretation insight contempt інтуїція зневага зниження infinitive descent інфінітив disappearance data зникнення інформація знишення demolition інфраструктура infrastructure ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАННЯ iris liability ірис **ЗОБРАЖЕННЯ** portrait ІСНУВАННЯ life зодчий architect історик historian canteen **ЗОСЕРЕДЖЕННЯ** concentration **ЇДАЛЬНЯ** зошит notebook **ЙМОВІРНІСТЬ** likelihood КАБІНА cabin зразок specimen **ЗРЕЧЕННЯ** КАБРІОЛЕТ denial cab **ЗРІЛІСТЬ** maturity кавалерія cavalry 3PICT height КАЗАН boiler convenience КАЗНА chest зручність КАЗНАЧЕЙСТВО зубний dental treasury КАЛЬСОНИ **ЗУСИЛЛЯ** pains drawers **ЗУСТРІЧ** appointment кальній calcium identification з'ясовування КАМЕНЯР mason ідентифікатор identifier КАМЕРА camera ідентифікація identification Камергер chamberlain ідентичність identity КАМІН fireplace ідеологія КАМПУС ideology campus ілея concept каналізація sewage ієрархія hierarchy КАНАПА sofa ізоляція insulation КАНДИДАТ applicant ілюстрація illustration КАНОН canon імовірність expectancy канилер chancellor капіталізм capitalism імператор emperor КАПІТАЛОВКЛАДЕННЯ investment імпульс momentum hood імунітет immunity капюшон інвестиція investment КАРА judgement КАРКАС investor framework інвестор індивідуальність identity КАРТОПЛИНА potato indicator індикатор картопля potato endorsement КАРТЯР індосамент player індукція induction КАРЦЕР cell індустрія industry касета cassette ІНЕРШІЯ momentum КАСТРУЛЯ cooker

КАТАСТРОФА accident commander командир КОМАНДУЮЧИЙ commander категорія category каюта cabin comedy комедія коментар квант quantum commentary neighbourhood КОМЕНТАРІЙ квартал commentary КЕБ cab КОМЕНТАТОР analyst КЕЛІЯ cell комин chimney керівник КОМІВОЯЖЕР traveller manager керівництво leadership **KOMICAP** commissioner КИЛАННЯ casting комітет committee кип'ятильник boiler КОМОРА depot кисень oxygen КОМПАКТНІСТЬ density кількість quantity КОМПЕНСАЦІЯ indemnity КІНЕМАТОГРАФ cinema композитор composer КІНЕМАТОГРАФІЯ cinema композиція composition КІНЕЦЬ outcome КОМПРЕСІЯ compression кіно cinema конвеншя convention КІНОАПАРАТ коник camera hobby КІНОКАМЕРА camera competitor конкурент КІНОСТУДІЯ studio конкуренція competition КІНОТЕАТР cinema КОНКУРС competition **КОНСЕРВУВАННЯ** кіншівка limb preservation клавіатура keyboard консиліум council клаловище churchyard консолідація consolidation КЛАН consortium tribe консорціум КОНСПЕКТ клапан valve syllabus КЛАС category констебль constable класифікація classification constitution конституція клієнт client конструкція construction клітина cell консультант consultant **КЛІТКА** consultation cell консультація клятва oath контейнер container княгиня princess КОНТРИБУШЯ contribution кобила mare КОНТРОЛЕР supervisor Коваль smith КОНФЕДЕРАЦІЯ confederation ковбаса конференція conference sausage КОВПАК lid конфігурація configuration КОДЕКС конфронтація confrontation corpus колега colleague КОНЦЕНТРАЦІЯ density КОЛЕКТОР collector концепція conception collector КООПЕРАШЯ колекціонер cooperation КООРДИНУВАННЯ колекція collection orientation коліно knee КОПАННЯ digging копія коліт colitis edition КОРАБЕЛЬ vessel колонія colony КОМАНДА brigade **КОРАБЛЕВОДІННЯ** navigation

boundary кухня kitchen кордон КОРЕЛЯЦІЯ correlation Кювет vale КОРЕСПОНДЕНЦІЯ correspondence лазер laser КОРИСНІСТЬ availability ламання demolition корова cattle ласка kindness королева queen легалізація validation королівство realm легенда legend КОРОНАРНИЙ coronary легені lights коронація coronation лейтмотив motif vocabulary коронер coroner лексика КОРПОРАЦІЯ incorporation lexicon лексикон lecturer корпус лектор corps landlord **КОСИНЕЦЬ** triangle лендлорд КОСМОС universe лижа ski костюм toilet лико fibre cottage лист writing котедж котел boiler листівка leaflet КОТЕЛОК bowler leaflet листочок КОТИРУВАННЯ quotation листя foliage кошик basket литка calf кошти funds disaster лихо коштовності jewellery fever лихоманка КРАЛІЖКА burglary лідер leader КРАЇНА nation ліквідація abolition ліквілність краса beauty liquidity КРАСУНЯ beauty ліки medicine **KPATEP** chimney лімб radius кредитор creditor лінгвістика linguistics КРЕДО creed лісівништво forestry offender aircraft кривдник літак література криза crisis literature Критерій canon літр litre кришка lid лічильник indicator armchair hazel крісло лішина **КРУГООБЕРТАННЯ** логіка circulation logic circulation логічність кругообіг consistency КУЗЕН локалізація allocation cousin КУЗИНА cousin demolition ломка ЛОРД lord cult культ cultivation КУЛЬТИВАЦІЯ лосось salmon культивування cultivation лотос lotus culture лояльність allegiance культура куля sphere льох cellar купон coupon люли men КУРС heading лялечка dolly КУХАР chef лялька doll

МАГІСТРАТ magistrate меч sword madam **МЕШКАНЦІ** population мадам МИС маєток estate cape МАЙНО asset МИСКА basin майстерня workshop hunter мисливень МАКЛЕР broker митник surveyor painter мито маляр customs мандрівник traveller МІДНИЙ copper МАНЕРИ behaviour мідь copper МАНІПУЛЮВАННЯ manipulation мікстура mixture МАНІПУЛЯЦІЯ manipulation мінливість uncertainty **МІРИЛО** маніфест manifesto criterion МАНІФЕСТАЦІЯ demonstration МІРКУВАННЯ speculation маркер marker Мірошник miller МАРКЕТИНГ marketing місія mission МАРКШЕЙЛЕР surveyor МІСЦЕ appointment МАСКУВАННЯ screening **МІСЦЕВІСТЬ** terrain **МАСЛОРОБНЯ МІСЦЕЗНАХОДЖЕННЯ** location dairy residence MACOH mason **МІСЦЕПЕРЕБУВАННЯ** математика mathematics МІСПЕПОЛОЖЕННЯ situation mainland місянь month материк материнство maternity міф myth МАХІНАЦІЯ manipulation мова language машина МОВЛЕННЯ car language машини machinery мовознавство linguistics МАШИНІСТ driver модифікація modification medal module мелаль модуль медицина medicine можливість possibility МЕЖА можливості boundary facilities **МЕЛІОРАШІЯ МОЛИТВА** improvement blessing **МЕЛЬНИК** miller молотобоєць striker мембрана membrane молочарня dairy мене me монархія monarchy менеджер manager МОНІТОРИНГ monitoring мені me монополія monopoly META ambition МОРАЛЬ morality metal МОТИВУВАННЯ метал motivation **МЕТАЛЕВИЙ** metal музей museum метафора metaphor музикант musician МЕТОЛИСТ МУКА supervisor agony методологія methodology м'ясо meat METP НАБІР metre intake механізм machine НАВАЛА invasion MEXAHIK smith навігація navigation mechanics НАВЧАЛЬНИЙ механіка training МЕХАНІК-ВОДІЙ driver НАВЧАННЯ education

imposition НАВ'ЯЗУВАННЯ **НЕВЛОВОЛЕННЯ** complaint нагадування reminder невинність innocence **НЕВИНУВАТІСТЬ** наглядач supervisor innocence нагода opportunity НЕВІЛОМІСТЬ uncertainty наголос emphasis невпевненість uncertainty НАГРІВНИК heater **НЕДОНОСОК** abortion налійність reliability недостача absence НАЛІЯ expectancy **НЕДОТОРКАННІСТЬ** immunity НАЇВНІСТЬ innocence **НЕЗАДОВОЛЕННЯ** dissatisfaction наймач employer independence незалежність НАКЛАДЕННЯ imposition незгода disagreement НАЛІТ НЕЗНАННЯ odour ignorance НАПАД **НЕЗРУЧНІСТЬ** nuisance aggression НАПИС writing нейлон nvlon НАПОЛЕГЛИВІСТЬ urgency нейлоновий nylon НАПРУГА voltage нейтралітет neutrality НАПРУЖЕННЯ effort **НЕОСВІЧЕНІСТЬ** ignorance consultation **НЕПОСТІЙНІСТЬ** нарада instability bride **НЕПРИЄМНІСТЬ** наречена nuisance народ nation НЕРІВНІСТЬ prominence НАРОДНІСТЬ nation **НЕСПОДІВАНКА** accident doll unrest наряджати неспокій нас 115 неспроможність disability населення population нестабільність instability насильство violence нестатки hardship наслідок outcome shortage нестача настрій mood неуважність absence НАСТУП offence ignorance неуцтво наступник successor неушкодженість safety rubbing НЕФАХІВЕЦЬ outsider натирання натрій sodium нирка kidnev натрій sodium НІДЕРЛАНДИ holland НАХАБСТВО НОВАТОРСТВО assurance innovation націоналізм nationalism нововведення innovation НАШОНАЛЬНІСТЬ nationality норма norm напія nation носильник porter НАЧАЛЬНИК manager нудьга boredom няньчення НАШАЛКИ succession nursing НАЩАДОК son oh НАЯВНІСТЬ availability accused обвинувачуваний небажання reluctance ОБВИНУВАЧУВАТИ article небезпека discussion danger обговорення небеса ОБҐРУНТОВАНІСТЬ validity heaven небіж nephew обертання rotation небо heaven ОБ'ЄДНАННЯ fusion НЕВДАЧА abortion ОБІТНИЦЯ profession

ОПЛАТА обладнання equipment payment ОПОВІШЕННЯ advertisement область region ОБЛУДА deception оподаткування imposition обман deception опонент opponent ОБМЕЖЕНІСТЬ limitation оправа setting **ОБМЕЖЕННЯ** constraint ОПУБЛІКУВАННЯ publication ОБОЛОНКА membrane ОПУКЛІСТЬ prominence оборона defence OPATOP speaker offence образа орган organ **ОБРАЗНИК** offender ОРГАНІЗМ system ОБРОБІТОК cultivation **ОРЕНДАР** holder ОБРОБКА processing орієнтація orientation ОБРЯЛ ceremony **ОРІЄНТУВАННЯ** orientation ОБСТАНОВКА atmosphere orchestra оркестр ОБСТОЮВАННЯ assertion sediment осад ОБЧИСЛЕННЯ evaluation освіта education оголошення announcement ОСВІТЛЕННЯ lighting ОГОРОЖА enclosure ОСВІЧЕНІСТЬ education residence ОДЕЖА clothes ОСЕЛЯ одержимість obsession ОСЕРЕДОК cell ОДЕРЖУВАЧ receiver остиний autumn одиниця unit осінь autumn ОДКРОВЕННЯ revelation ОСКВЕРНЕННЯ contamination clothes ОСКОЛКИ оляг chips **ОЗДОБЛЕННЯ** decoration основа basis ОЗЕРО loch особистість personality ОЗНАКА indication особняк mansion ОЗНАЧЕННЯ definition ОСТАЧА remainder identification озон ozone ототожнення оточення ОКЛАД salary surroundings околиці vicinity отримувач receiver ОТРУТА околиця outskirts virus ОКРУГ county офіцер officer ОКРУГА region офіціант waiter glasses ox oh окуляри олень deer ОХОПЛЕННЯ coverage ОХОРОНА олтар altar custody **ОНОВЛЕННЯ** renewal оцінка appraisal опера opera ОЦІНЮВАННЯ evaluation очишення оператор operator cleaning ОПЕРАШЯ operation очікування expectancy ОПІКА павук spider custody ОПІКУВАННЯ custody ПАДІННЯ incidence опікун ПАЙОВИК administrator shareholder ОПІКУНСТВО ПАКЕТ batch custody rebellion опір ПАЛАНТИН stole

палан palace victory перемога ПАН sir переможець victor ПЕРЕПИСУВАННЯ ПАНЕЛЬ socket transcription пані dame ПЕРЕРВА interval ПАНУВАННЯ domination переробка alteration ПАПЕРТЬ porch переслідування pursuit ПАРАГРАФ article перетворення transformation парадигма paradigm перехід transition ПАРАМЕТР parameter ПЕРЕШКОДА nuisance Париж paris ПЕРІОЛ dav parliament парламент персонал personnel парубок boy перспектива perspective ПЕРШІСТЬ пасажир passenger championship ПАСАЖИРКА печінка liver passenger ПАСОВИЩЕ outlet письменник writer письменність literacy паспорт passport ПАСТВА congregation письмо writing ammunition патрони півкуля hemisphere ПАУЗА interval підбадьорювання encouragement пахощі odour ПІДБУРЮВАННЯ promotion ПАЧКА batch пілготовка training ПЕЙЗАЖ ПІДДАТЛИВІСТЬ compliance scenery ПЕКАР baker ПІД'ЇЗД porch ПЕЛЕРИНА cape ПІДКЛАДКА backing пеніс penis підкова shoe пенні penny підкорення submission ПЕНС penny ПІДНОС waiter пенсіонер pensioner ПІДПРИЄМЕЦЬ businessman ПЕРГАМЕНТ basil ПІДПРИЄМЛИВІСТЬ enterprise ПЕРЕБУДОВА reconstruction ПІДПРИЄМНИЦТВО enterprise ПЕРЕВАГА asset підприємство enterprise переважання prevalence ПІДРОЗДІЛ unit перевізник carrier підрядчик contractor перегляд revision ПІДСТАВА basis ПЕРЕГОВОРИ discussion підсудний accused ПЕРЕДАЧА confirmation assignment підтвердження ПІДТРИМАННЯ maintenance переддень eve ПЕРЕДМІСТЯ outskirts підтримка backing ПЕРЕЖИТОК survival ПІДТЯЖКА supporter ПЕРЕЇЗД removal пізнавання identification ПІКЛУВАННЯ ПЕРЕКАЗ rehearsal custody ПЕРЕКЛАД version піня scum ПЕРЕКОНАНІСТЬ conviction ПІНИТИСЯ scum переконання creed пінта pint ПЕРЕМІНА variation ПІРАТ rover переміщення removal піхотя infantry

ПОКАЗ exhibition піч oven ПЛАВКА fusion ПОКАЗАННЯ indication ПОКАЗНИК indicator плазма plasma ПЛАН покарання judgement proposal resignation планета planet покірність планування покликання mission planning ПЛАТА payment покоління tribe ПЛАТОСПРОМОЖНІСТЬ ability ПОКОРА submission покриття Плаш cape coverage племінник nephew покупень customer tribe плем'я ПОЛЕ lea. ПЛИТА cooker полиця shelf ПЛУТАНИНА confusion полімер polymer побячення appointment поліпшення improvement побудова construction Полісмен bobby поведінка behaviour політика policy ПОВЕРНЕННЯ recurrence політичність policy повідомлення ПОЛІШЕЙСЬКИЙ constable message ПОВІКА положення lid situation ПОВІРЕНИЙ полонений prisoner attorney ПОВІТРЯ atmosphere помішик landlord поводження пониження behaviour descent повстання rebellion поні pony поновлення ПОВТОРЕННЯ rehearsal continuation cancellation ПОГАШЕННЯ **ПОНЯТТЯ** conception ПОГЛИНАННЯ intake поповнення recruitment ПОГЛИНАТИ gulf amendment поправка поглинення популярність absorption availability adjustment погодження пора dav ПОГРІБ ПОРАДА cellar recommendation threshold погроза threat поріг ПОРТЕР ПОДАННЯ representation porter astonishment подив ПОРТИК porch подих breath портрет portrait ПОДІБНІСТЬ resemblance портфель portfolio подія event ПОСАДА appointment подорож ПОСЕЛЕННЯ settlement travelling ПОСЕРЕДНИК broker ПОДУВ breath carrier поляка gratitude посильний ПОСЛАНЕЦЬ ambassador поезія poetry succession поема poem послідовність ПОСЛУГА ПОЗА kindness stance позбавлення deprivation посол ambassador позищя ПОСТАВА attitude attitude litigation ПОСТАНОВКА production HU3UB ПОКАЖЧИК indicator постачальник supplier

постійність consistency ПРИВАБЛИВІСТЬ affinity ПОСТОЯЛЕНЬ придатність guest fitness ПОСТУПЛИВІСТЬ compliance ПРИДУШЕННЯ repression посудина vessel ПРИЄЛНАННЯ inclusion приз потовщення node trophy **ПРИЗЕМЛЕННЯ** потреба requirement landing ПОТЯГ affinity ПРИЗНАК symptom початок source ПРИЗНАЧЕННЯ allocation приїзд arrival почерк writing поширення ПРИЙМАННЯ prevalence acceptance поштовх impulse ПРИЙМАЧ receiver прийняття появя emergence acceptance пояснення illustration ПРИЙОМ device правила law приклад example norm прикраса decoration правило правильність accuracy ПРИКРІСТЬ nuisance ПРАВНИК прилад apparatus attorney право law ПРИЛАЛЛЯ accessories **ПРАВОЗДАТНІСТЬ** ПРИМАНКА ability attraction правопис spelling ПРИМУС constraint ПРАВОПОРУШНИК offender humiliation приниження ПРАВОСВІЛОМІСТЬ awareness принцеса princess ПРАГНЕННЯ ambition припинення termination ПРАЦІ proceedings ПРИПРАВА dressing ПРИПУЩЕННЯ працівник worker admission accession ПРАЦЬОВИТІСТЬ industry приріст ПРЕДМЕТ topic прискорення acceleration **ПРЕДОК** grandfather присмак odour ПРЕДСТАВНИК ambassador ПРИСТРІЙ device ПРЕДСТАВНИЦТВО representation oath присяга ПРЕД'ЯВЛЕННЯ production присяжні iurv президент president притулок asylum президентство presidency ПРИТЯГАННЯ attraction **ПРЕЗИРСТВО** ПРИХИЛЬНИК contempt supporter ПРЕСИ media ПРИХІЛ advent ПРИЧАСТЯ altar communion престол причетність претендент applicant implication preference ПРІРВА преферанс gulf проблема преференція preference problem ПРОВИНА offence ПРИБИРАЛЬНИК cleaner ПРИБИРАННЯ Провулок lane cleaning прибічник supporter ПРОГРАВАЧ player ПРИБУВАННЯ arrival svllabus програма прибутковість profitability ПРОГРЕС advancement ПРИБУТОК revenue продавець seller прибуття advent ПРОДАЖ realization

continuation прояв exhibition продовження product продукт пряжа yarn ПРОДУКТИВНІСТЬ psychologist production психолог психологія ПРОДУКЦІЯ production psychology ПРОДЮСЕР producer ПУБЛІКАШЯ publication ПРОЕКТ device ПУБЛІЧНІСТЬ publicity ПРОЕКТУВАННЯ projection пуловер sweater ПРОЕКЦІЯ projection ПУНКТ article ПУСКОВИЙ ПРОЖИВАННЯ residence launching **ПРОЗОРІСТЬ** clarity Пустише heath **ПРОЗОРЛИВІСТЬ** insight ПУХЛИНА tumour прокурор attorney пучина gulf промисловість industry п'ятий fifth проміжок clearance senate рада speaker radar промовець радар ПРОПАЖА operator disappearance радист heater пропозиція proposal радіатор ПРОПОНУВАННЯ радіолокатор radar proposal пропорція ratio радіолокація radar ПРОСВІТ daylight радіопередача broadcasting ПРОСІЮВАННЯ screening РАДІОПРИЙМАЧ receiver Проспект avenue радіостудія studio простирадло sheet радість sunshine ПРОСТІР radius expansion радіус ПРОСТОТА counsellor innocence радник ПРОСТУПОК offence район neighbourhood missile ПРОСУВАННЯ promotion ракета ПРОТИБОРСТВО racism confrontation расизм validation противник opponent ратифікація ПРОТИДІЯ раціональність rationality reaction rehabilitation протокол protocol реабілітація ПРОТОКОЛЮВАТИ reactor protocol реактор ПРОТОТИП prototype реакція reaction ПРОФАН outsider реалізація realization професія profession реалізм realism професор professor ревізія revision ПРОХАННЯ controller prayer ревізор прохач applicant ревнощі jealousy Прохід lane регіон region ПРОЦВІТАННЯ success регіт laughter процедура procedure регламент agenda ПРОЦЕНТ percent регресія regression ПРОЦЕС adiustment operation регулювання процесія editor procession редактор ПРОЦЕСОР wording processor редакція Прощання vale реєстратор recorder

реєстрація registration **РОЗБІЖНІСТЬ** variance regime розвага amusement режим reservation **РЕЗЕРВАЦІЯ** розведення culture резервуар basin розвиток development **РЕЗЕРВУВАННЯ** reservation розв'язання solution резиденція palace розгортання deployment резолюція resolution роздратування irritation product printing результат роздрук advertising speculation реклама роздумування РЕКЛАМУВАННЯ advertising svllabus розклад recommendation dissolution рекомендація розкладання reconstruction реконструкція розкопки digging president disclosure ректор розкриття релевантність relevance розмарин rosemary religion metre релігія розмір renaissance placement ренесанс розміщення repertoire розмноження proliferation репертуар conversation репетиція rehearsal розмова розпізнавання репресія repression identification РЕПУТАЦІЯ odour розплідник nurserv restaurant розповсюдження extension ресторан boiler classification реторта розподіл referendum референдум розпорядник steward рецепт recipe розрізнення distinction рецептор receptor розробка operation recurrence developer рецидив розробник речник speaker розряд category grid nursery решітка розсадник remainder розслідування investigation решта РОЗТАШУВАННЯ disposal рибник nursery ризик danger розуміння insight rhetoric розцінка tariff риторика риття розчарування disappointment digging рівність equality розчин solution рівноправність equality розчинення dissolution РОЗШИРЕННЯ extension рівняння equation різновид variation рослинність vegetation рiк year рубрика heading demolition річ руйнування thing resolution script рішення рукопис рішучість resolution movement рух employee салівник gardener робітник салат salad робота operation роботодавець employer салон salon родич consin салун saloon розбирання demolition самосвідомість consciousness

самостійність independence composition склад самотність loneliness складність complexity санкнія approval скло glasses сварка скорочення contraction controversy скриня chest светр sweater свинина pork СКРОНЯ temple свіломість consciousness скупчення collection світ kingdom скутість constraint світяння daylight СЛАВА odour світанок daylight слідство investigation світлотінь lighting словник vocabulary світогляд ideology слуга servant свічення lighting служба corps святилише sanctuary службовець servant session servant сеанс служитель секреція secretion служниця maid sector obedience сектор слухняність settlement селище Слюсар smith селянин peasant сміх laughter селянство смуга width peasantry seminar soldier семінар солдат сенат senate сорочка shirt cep sir сосиска sausage сервер server сотня century середовище surroundings софа sofa сержант sergeant софістика sophistication сесія session сопіалізм socialism соціологія sister сестра sociology enforcement силування союз iunction символ symbol спадкоємень successor симетрія symmetry спадщина heritage симптом symptom спекуляція speculation СИН child специфікація specification синдром syndrome спецуповноважений commissioner синтаксис спирт alcohol syntax синтез synthesis спипя radius система system співак singer ситуація situation співачка singer ci співвідношення ratio сілок commonwealth passenger співдружність collaboration ciuo hay співпраця скарбник співробітник treasurer colleague скарбниця reservoir співробітництво collaboration complaint спікер speaker скарга abolition communion скасування спілкування спільність скептицизм scepticism unity

сплата settlement стихія element стійкість сповіль confession stability announcement сповішення стік outlet споживання intake століття century спонука impulse сторіччя century спонукання motivation сторонній outsider спорідненість affinity стоянка parking споруда construction страждальник sufferer спосіб means страждання agony СПРАВА striker thing страйкар execution справжність identity страта сприймання insurance perception страховий сприйняття perception insurance страхування спритність activity стримування repression сприяння assistance стрічка ribbon спроможність ability строк day спростування denial структура framework descent student спуск студент studio стабільність stability студія ставленик creature стюард steward ставлення attitude субсидування backing СТАЛІЙ stadium суверенітет sovereignty стадіон stadium суворість severity стажер trainee суд law стан situation суддя magistrate situation judgement становище судження старанність accuracy судина vessel статистика statistics vessel судно статистики statistics судноплавство shipping article proceedings стаття судочинство statute статут сума quantum статуя statue mixture суміш створення creation сумка wallet створіння creation суперечка controversy створювання creation супермаркет supermarket стегно thigh суперник competitor Стежка lane супротивник opponent neighbourhood стеля ceiling сусіди стерилізація processing сусідство neighbourhood стерпність tolerance society суспільство стиль entity language суть incentive earth стимул суша stimulation стимулювання сушити stove стимуляція stimulation сфера sphere стипенліат scholar схвалення approval стискання contraction схема device

descent tolerance схил терпимість addiction схильність тертя rubbing схілні stairs техніка mechanism технологія схов custody processing depot week сховише тиждень сходи staircase тип specimen сходка congregation тираж circulation схожість resemblance тиск enforcement схоронність preservation тіло corpus сценарій script тітка aunt explanation таз basin тлумачення таксі cab товар article талон coupon товариство society танення dissolution товшина thickness танцівник dancer той speaker танцюрист dancer токар turner tariff толерантність tolerance тариф тональність татко daddy mood тато dad топограф survevor татусь daddy торба wallet creature marketing тварина торгівля твердження statement торговець vendor твердість resolution торф peat creation тотожність твір identity creature творення точки points творець maker точність accuracy творіння creation травма trauma theatre театр трагедія tragedy thesis теза традиція tradition Teket text трактир pub телебачення television трактор tractor телевізійний television транскрипція transcription телевізор telly трансляція broadcasting телестудія studio трансформація transformation телефоніст operator stairs трап ТЕЛЯ calf тренування training theme темя трибунал tribunal теніс tennis трикутник triangle теократія hierarchy тротуар pavement теорія theory трофей trophy теплиця greenhouse труднощі hardship терапія труси shorts therapy toilet тераса terrace туалет туалетний toilet територія territory tourism терміновість urgency туризм термінологія terminology tourist турист

department турнікет wicket факультет туфля shoe фальсифікація sophistication тьотя aunt фамільярність familiarity **ТЯЖІННЯ** attraction фантазія imagination тямущість comprehension dax profession убиральня lavatory фашизм fascism federation убрання clothes федерація ув'язнення custody фемінізм feminism transaction фемініст feminist угода success phenomenon феномен **у**дача perfection farmer удосконалення фермер узгодженість consistency фізика physics outskirts фікція fiction узлісся укладення conclusion філолог-класик scholar ability філософія philosophy уміння уніфікація unification фільм movie *<u>чпевненість</u>* assurance фінансування sponsorship упорскування injection флора flora ФЛЯГА управитель manager canteen управління department фонд chest formula управляючий steward формула vulnerability formulation уразливість формулювання урегулювання settlement форум forum **усвідомлення** realization фотоапарат camera усмоктування absorption фотограф photographer успіх advancement фотографія photography установа фракційність faction organ installation фракція faction **установка** Фрезерувальник miller устаткування equipment foundation устрій system фундамент operation уступ shelf функціонування disposal футбол football усунення creation футбольний football утворення утримання maintenance хазяїн manager хазяйка учасник participant mistress partnership hut vчасть халупа scholar khan vчений хан student hut учень хата teacher **у**атина hut учитель imagination хвилювання unrest уява хвіртка wicket уявлення impression хижак predator фабрика factory фабрикант maker хіл movement фаза phase хімік chemist факти data хірург surgeon факторія factory хірургія surgery

voungster хлопець хлопчик voungster хоббі hobby хобі hobby walker ходак храм temple treasurer хранитель хрестоматія reader худоба livestock художник painter цвинтар cemetery цензура censorship центр nucleus церемонія ceremony церква temple workshop цех onion цибулина onion цибуля циркуляція circulation питата quotation **ШИТУВАННЯ** quotation ШНА quotation пнотливість innocence child чало medicine чаклунство чан vat частина quantum частота frequency частотність frequency чаша basin чемодан suitcase чемпіонат championship чергування rotation черевик shoe чернецтво religion черниця sister честолюбність ambition ининість validity чиновник officer cleaner чистильник иистка cleaning чистота clarity читання reading reader читач

member член membership членство чоло brow чоловіки men чутливість sensitivity шабля sword шар thickness шафа wardrobe shah шах ШАХРАЙСТВО deception швейцар porter шельф shelf шерсть wool шеф-кухар chef шина tvre шинок pub width ширина width широта pupil школяр шлях doorway shorts шорти шосе highway шофер driver шпага sword шпаргалка cab штаб headquarters штаб-квартира headquarters штани trousers штат personnel шухляда drawer щастя happiness шебінь metal шільність density юнак youngster юрисдикція jurisdiction юрисконсульт solicitor юриспруденція law юрист lawyer явище phenomenon nucleus ядро яйце egg ясність clarity яхта vacht яшик chest

reader

definition

читець чіткість

#### Nouns (English - Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script))

ЗДІБНІСТЬ ability abolition відміна abortion аборт absence неуважність absorption ЗАГЛИБЛЕНІСТЬ abundance багатство academy акалемія acceleration прискорення acceptance прийняття зыльшення accession accessories АКСЕСУАРИ accident випалок відповідальність accountability accuracy правильність обвинувачуваний accused acknowledgement вдячність

acre activation activity actress addiction adjustment administrator admission advancement advent advertisement advertising adviser

aeroplane

affinity agenda aggression agony

agreement agriculture aircraft

airline airport album

акр активація АКТИВНІСТЬ актриса схильність регулювання адміністратор вступ ΠΡΟΓΡΕС ПРИБУТТЯ

ОГОЛОШЕННЯ реклама

КОНСУЛЬТАНТ

аероплан ПRТОП регламент АГРЕСИВНІСТЬ агонія

ДОМОВЛЕНІСТЬ землеробство

АВІАЦІЯ АВІАКОМПАНІЯ аеропорт альбом

alcohol алкоголь allegiance вірність alliance альянс

allocation АСИГНУВАННЯ alpha Альфа

altar вівтар alteration 3MIHA aluminium алюміній ambassador вісник ambition **META** amendment виправлення ammunition боєприпаси amusement розвага analogy аналогія KOMEHTATOP analyst

announcement оголошення anthropology антропологія antibody антитіло apparatus МАШИНА претендент applicant appointment ПОСАДА appraisal оцінка

approval ЗАТВЕРДЖЕННЯ arbitration арбітраж archaeology археологія architect творець are ap arena арена argument аргумент aristocracy аристократія armchair крісло

arrival **ДОСЯГНЕННЯ** 

ЗАД arse arsenal Арсенал article ПРЕДМЕТ artillery артилерія

assembly **ЗОСЕРЕДЖЕННЯ** ОБСТОЮВАННЯ assertion

asset МАЙНО АКТИВ assets assignment розподіл assistance сприяння assurance гарантія asthma астма astonishment здивування asylum ЗАХИСТОК ОБСТАНОВКА atmosphere

attitude ставлення brother брат attorney юрист brow брова АТРАКЦІОН attraction builder будівник aunt тітка bulletin бюлетень осінь autumn bungalow бунгало availability КОРИСНІСТЬ bureau бюро avenue ЗАСІБ бюрократія bureaucracy aviation КРАДІЖКА авіація burglary awareness ПРАВОСВІДОМІСТЬ businessman бізнесмен axis butler Дворецький backing ПІДКЛАДКА buyer покупець bacon бекон cab КАБРІОЛЕТ baker ПЕКАР cabin будка балкон calcium balcony кальцій ballet балет calf ТЕЛЯ banker банкір camera фотоапарат bankruptcy банкрутство campus КАМПУС barrier бар'єр cancellation скасування basil грань canon Правило basin басейн canteen буфет basis Плаш база cape basket капіталізм кошик capitalism batch вагон група car bathroom carrier носильник ванна beauty врода carter візник МАНЕРИ behaviour cassette касета bible біблія КИЛАННЯ casting bile жовч category категорія binoculars біноклі cattle корова biography біографія cavalry кавалерія biology біологія ceiling стеля cell КАМЕРА bitterness гіркота благословення ПОГЫР blessing cellar bobby Полісмен cemetery кладовище boiler реторта censorship цензура booklet брошюра century вік boredom ceremony ОБРЯД нудьга boundary МЕЖА certainty упевненість bourgeoisie буржуазія chamberlain Камергер КОТЕЛОК bowler championship чемпіонат chancellor boy парубок канцлер brazil **БРАЗИЛІЯ** chef КУХАР breath дихання chemist ΑΠΤΕΚΑΡ bride chest наречена груди brigade child бригада дитина broadcasting радіопередача chimney ДИМОХІД brochure брошура chips ОСКОЛКИ broker МАКЛЕР churchyard кладовише

cinema ΚΙΗΕΜΑΤΟΓΡΑΦ congregation збори КРУГООБЕРТАННЯ circulation conquest завоювання citizenship consciousness самосвідомість громадянство ПРОЗОРІСТЬ логічність clarity consistency classification класифікація consolation втіха cleaner ПРИБИРАЛЬНИК consolidation ЗАТВЕРДІННЯ cleaning ПРИБИРАННЯ consortium консорціум clearance очишення constable констебль clearing чистка constituency виборці духовенство constitution clergy конституція client **ЗАМОВНИК** constraint **РИНЗЖЗМЯО** clothes білизна construction будівництво colitis коліт consultant консультант collaboration співпраця consultation КОНСИЛІУМ colleague колега container контейнер collection ЗАРАЖЕННЯ збірка contamination collector ЗБИРАЧ contempt зневага colony contention колонія твердження comedy комедія contents вміст continuation ПОНОВЛЕННЯ commander командир commentary continuity безперебійність коментар commissioner KOMICAP contraction скорочення commitment вчинення contractor підрядчик committee комітет contribution КОНТРИБУЦІЯ commodity ПРОДУКТ controller ревізор commonwealth держава controversy ДИСКУСІЯ communion спільність convenience вигода competition конкуренція convention договір competitor конкурент conversation бесіла ЗАСУДЖЕННЯ complaint НЕВДОВОЛЕННЯ conviction КАСТРУЛЯ complexity ЗАПЛУТАНІСТЬ cooker compliance ПІДДАТЛИВІСТЬ cooper бондар КООПЕРАЦІЯ composer композитор cooperation композиція composition coping вкриття МІДНИЙ comprehension тямущість copper КОМПРЕСІЯ КОРОНАРНИЙ compression coronary concentration ЗГУШЕННЯ coronation коронація concept поняття coroner коронер розуміння conception корпус corps conclusion висновок збірник corpus confederation КОНФЕДЕРАЦІЯ correlation КОРЕЛЯЦІЯ conference correspondence **КІЛОКАНА** з'їзд confession визнання cottage котедж configuration конфігурація council консиліум confirmation councillor підтвердження радник confrontation конфронтація counsellor радник confusion **ЗАМІШАННЯ** ОКРУГ county

dentist дантист coupon купон ДВІР department courtyard відділ КУЗЕН cousin deployment розгортання ОХОПЛЕННЯ КОМОРА coverage depot creation утворення depression депресія creature deprivation відібрання творення creditor depth безодня кредитор creed зниження віросповідання descent destination ПРИЗНАЧЕННЯ crew КОМАНДА crisis криза detection виявлення criterion МІРИЛО detector детектор cruelty безсердечність devaluation девальвація cult віросповідання developer розробник ЕВОЛЮЦІЯ cultivation розведення development ПРИСТРІЙ culture культура device curriculum розклад diagnosis діагноз custody ОПІКУНСТВО diameter діаметр customer замовник dictionary ДОВІДНИК КОПАННЯ customs мито digging dad dimension татко величина daddy татко dioxide двоокис МАСЛОРОБНЯ dairy diplomacy дипломатія dale directions ДИРЕКТИВИ долина dame ДАМА disability неспроможність dancer балерина disagreement незгода ЗАГРОЗА danger disappearance зникнення ПРИКРІСТЬ data відомості disappointment disaster daughter ДОНЬКА лихо day ПЕРІОД disc диск daylight гласність disclosure відкриття dean **ДЕКАН** discovery виявлення debt discussion борг дискусія ДЕБІТОР debtor disk диск debut ДЕБЮТ disposal передача decade десятиріччя dissatisfaction **НЕЗАЛОВОЛЕННЯ** deception ШАХРАЙСТВО dissolution розкладання decoration ОЗДОБЛЕННЯ distinction розрізнення deer diversion відхилення олень defence виправдання doctrine **ДОГМА** defender борець documentation документація definition doll визначення лялька delegation dollar лелегація долар democrat демократ dolly лялечка demolition dolphin руйнування дельфін demonstration domain маєток вияв denial відмова dominance вплив density ГУСТИНА domination влада dental зубний door двері

doorway шлях example зразок drama драма exception виняток КАЗНАЧЕЙСТВО drawer exchequer шухляда drawers КАЛЬСОНИ excitement збудження dressing вдягання exclusion виключення driver водій execution виконання duchy герцогство exhibition ПРОЯВ earl граф existence існування earth ЕКСПАНСІЯ суша expansion ecology екологія expectancy імовірність economics економіка expenditure витрачання economist економіст expertise експертиза edition explanation пояснення тираж editor exploitation використання редактор education виховання exploration дослідження effectiveness **ЛІЄВІСТЬ ЕКСПОЗИЦІЯ** exposure effort зусилля expression вислів extension egg яйце витягування electron електрон extraction витяг element елемент facilities МОЖЛИВОСТІ emergence faction фракційність вихід emperor імператор factory фабрика emphasis наголос familiarity фамільярність emplovee службовець famine голод employer наймач farmer **ОРЕНЛАР** enclosure ДОДАТОК fascism фашизм encouragement заохочення federation союз endorsement індосамент feminism фемінізм feminist enforcement тиск фемініст fever enjoyment володіння гарячка ЗАПИТ enquiry fibre волокно enterprise підприємство fiction фікція fifth п'ятий entity суть fighter борець entry ворота ОТОЧЕННЯ environment відкриття finding KAMIH enzyme ензим fireplace **ДОРЕЧНІСТЬ** episode епізод fitness equality рівність flexibility гнучкість flora equation рівняння флора equipment облалнання листя foliage era лоба football футбол estate маєток forestry лісівництво ethics formula ЕТИКА ДОГМАТ evaluation ОБЧИСЛЕННЯ formulation формулювання eve переддень forum форум event foundation фундамент випалок framework КАРКАС evolutionary еволюційний

frequency частота hospitality гостинність жаба hostility frog ворожість ЗАВЕРШЕННЯ fulfilment hotel готель КОШТИ funds hour година ОБ'ЄДНАННЯ fusion housekeeper економка gallery балкон humiliation приниження гараж hunter мисливець garage hut gardener городник хатина gate брама hvdrogen водень ген hygiene гігієна gene geography географія hypothesis гіпотеза geology геологія identification ототожнення girl дівчина identifier ідентифікатор ідентичність glasses окуляри identity glucose глюкоза ideology ідеологія goodwill ДОБРОЗИЧЛИВІСТЬ ignorance НЕОСВІЧЕНІСТЬ grandfather ліл illustration ілюстрація баба grandmother imagination уява влячність **НЕДОТОРКАННІСТЬ** gratitude immunity greenhouse implementation здійснення теплиця ЗАЛУЧЕННЯ grid решітка implication ПОСТОЯЛЕЦЬ НАВ'ЯЗУВАННЯ guest imposition guilt враження impression ПОГЛИНАТИ **МЕЛІОРАЦІЯ** gulf improvement habitat ЖИТЛО impulse імпульс handwriting почерк incentive стимул incidence happiness шастя ПАЛІННЯ hardship inclusion нестатки включення ЗАРОБІТОК сіно income hay hazel лішина incorporation КОРПОРАЦІЯ heading заголовок indemnity відшкодування headquarters штаб independence самостійність ПІЧ indication heater симптом heath indicator верес індикатор heaven небеса induction індукція промисловість height височина industry heir НАСТУПНИК infantry піхота helicopter вертоліт infinitive інфінітив ПДАМЧОФНІ hemisphere півкуля information heritage спадщина infrastructure інфраструктура hierarchy теократія injection ін'єкція highway inn готель шосе historian історик innocence пнотливість КОНИК innovation HOBATOPCTBO hobby holder ОРЕНДАР inquest слідство holland НІДЕРЛАНДИ розуміння insight homosexuality гомосексуалізм insistence наполегливість **НЕПОСТІЙНІСТЬ** hood капюшон instability

installation встановлення lawn батист institution встановлення lawver алвокат instructions layout інструкції план instructor lea ПОЛЕ інструктор insulation ізоляція leader вождь insurance страховий leadership керівництво intake НАБІР leaflet листівка interaction взаємодія learner учень interpretation інтерпретація ЗАКІНЧЕННЯ leaving interval AHTPAKT lecturer ЛЯК invasion НАВАЛА legend легенда invention ВИНАХІДЛИВІСТЬ ЗАКОНИ legislation investigation дослідження legitimacy законність investment інвестиція lexicon лексикон ЗОБОВ'ЯЗАННЯ investor інвестор liability involvement втягування librarian бібліотекар iris library бібліотека ірис irritation lid КОВПАК роздратування isolation ізоляція life ДОВІЧНИЙ ЗАЗЛРІСТЬ lighter ЗАПАЛЮВАЧ jealousy jewellery коштовності lighting свічення journalism журналістика lights легені journalist ЖУРНАЛІСТ likelihood імовірність judgement вирок limb кінцівка junction з'єднання limestone вапняк jurisdiction юрисдикція limitation обмеження **АВАРІЙНИЙ** jury linguistics лінгвістика keeper власник liquidity ліквідність keyboard клавіатура literacy грамотність khan хан literature література kidnev нирка litigation позов kindness **ДОБРОЗИЧЛИВІСТЬ** litre літр світ liver kingdom печінка kinship подібність livestock худоба location **МІСЦЕЗНАХОДЖЕННЯ** kitchen кухня loch O3EPO knee коліно knitting в'язання logic логіка lad хлопець loneliness самотність landing lord ЛОРЛ висалка landlord грузовик господар lorry lane Провулок lotus лотос language вірність мова loyalty laser лазер luggage багаж laughter регіт machine механізм ЗАПУСК машини launching machinery lavatory madam малам туалет law madame Пані право

ΜΑΓΙCΤΡΑΤ magistrate монархія monarchy magnitude МОНІТОРИНГ величина monitoring maid служниця monopoly монополія mainland материк month місяць maintenance ПІДТРИМАННЯ тональність mood maker виробник morality ЕТИКА НАЧАЛЬНИК motif лейтмотив manager заохочення manifesto маніфест motivation МАНІПУЛЮВАННЯ motorway АВТОМАГІСТРАЛЬ manipulation manor маєток movement рух mansion особняк movie фільм manufacturer виготовлювач museum музей mare кобила musician вокаліст marker маркер mvth міф marketing збут nation **ДЕРЖАВА** marsh болото nationalism націоналізм mason КАМЕНЯР nationality ГРОМАДЯНСТВО maternity материнство navigation навігація mathematics сусідство математика neighbourhood maturity ЗРІЛІСТЬ небіж nephew me мене neutrality нейтралітет багатство means nitrogen азот 3MICT node ПОТОВЩЕННЯ meat mechanics механіка norm норма mechanism техніка notebook блокнот medal медаль nucleus центр media ПРЕСИ nuisance досада medicine ліки nursery інкубатор member ЕЛЕМЕНТ nursing няньчення membership членство nut гайка нейлоновий membrane nylon мембрана oath богохульство men люди obedience злиття покірність merger **ДОРУЧЕННЯ** obsession message одержимість odour metal метал СЛАВА метафора offence ПРОВИНА metaphor offender methodology методологія кривдник metre розмір officer офіцер МЕЛЬНИК  $\mathbf{O}$ miller oh minutes протокол onion цибулина missile ракета opera опера mission місія operation дія mistress володарка operator оператор mixture змішування opponent супротивник modification opportunity модифікація нагода module модуль orchestra оркестр moisture вологість organ газета momentum імпульс organism організм

orientation орієнтація piper дудар КІНЕЦЬ outcome placement розміщення outlet вихіл planet планета outset ПРОЕКТУВАННЯ вирушання planning НЕФАХІВЕЦЬ outsider plasma плазма outskirts околиця player гравець oven піч plea виправдання owner хазяїн вірш poem поезія кисень oxygen poetry ozone озон points точки packet група policy спритність ЗУСИЛЛЯ pains polymer полімер поні painter маляр pony palace popularity популярність палац paradigm парадигма population заселення parameter ПАРАМЕТР porch веранда батьки parents pork свинина Париж paris porter носильник parking стоянка portfolio портфель ЗОБРАЖЕННЯ parliament парламент portrait participant possibility можливість **учасник** partnership пистівка товариство postcard пасажир potato КАРТОПЛИНА passenger passport паспорт prayer молитва pavement бруківка predator хижак payment винагорода preference перевага peasant селянин preoccupation заклопотаність peasantry селянство preservation запобігання peat торф presidency президентство penis пеніс president ректор penny пенні prevalence переважання prevention ЗАПОБІГАННЯ pensioner пенсіонер ПРОЦЕНТ percent princess княгиня ПРОЦЕНТ percentage printer друкар ДРУКУВАННЯ perception відчуття printing **АРЕШТОВАНИЙ** perfection досконалість prisoner personality індивідуальність problem ЗАВДАННЯ personnel procedure процедура ПРАШ perspective вил proceedings бензин виторг petrol proceeds фаза ОБРОБКА phase processing phenomenon феномен процесія procession ПРОЦЕСОР philosophy філософія processor photographer фотограф producer виробник фотографія виріб photography product ПОСТАНОВКА physics фізика production pint пінта profession віросповідання

ВИКЛАДАЧ professor recommendation рекомендація profitability прибутковість reconstruction реконструкція prohibition заборона recorder реєстратор projection КИЛАННЯ recreation відпочинок ПОШИРЕННЯ proliferation recruitment поповнення prominence ОПУКЛІСТЬ recurrence ПОВЕРНЕННЯ promotion сприяння referendum референдум refusal pronunciation вимова відмова ПЛАН regime proposal режим proprietor господар region КРАЇНА protocol протокол registration реєстрація prototype ПРОТОТИП regression регресія proximity близькість rehabilitation реабілітація psychologist психолог rehearsal репетиція psychology психологія rejection відхилення pub трактир relationship ЗВ'ЯЗОК publication вилання relevance релевантність reliability publicity гласність надійність publisher видавець religion релігія publishing видавничий reluctance небажання remainder punishment кара залишок reminder pupil школяр нагадування purchaser removal покупець переміщення pursuit гонитва renaissance відродження quantity вепичина renewal ПОПОВНЕННЯ quantum квант repertoire репертуар queen repetition повторення королева questionnaire анкета representation зображення quotation КОТИРУВАННЯ repression ПРИДУШЕННЯ racism расизм requirement вимагання radar researcher радар дослідник лімб radius resemblance ПОДІБНІСТЬ ЗАСТЕРЕЖЕННЯ railway залізниця reservation ratio відношення reservoir водосховище rationality раціональність residence резиденція reaction resignation вплив покірність reactor resolution рішучість реактор reader читач restaurant ресторан reading тлумачення retention затримка realism реалізм retirement відставка realization revelation ОДКРОВЕННЯ виконання realm revenue сфера дохід reassurance запевнення revision ПЕРЕРОБКА rebellion revival опір відродження rhetoric receiver ОДЕРЖУВАЧ риторика receptor рецептор ribbon стрічка recession відхід robin вільшанка recipe рецепт rosemary розмарин

rotation обертання similarity подібність rover блукач singer бард rubbing sir ПАН натирання безпечність sister safety сестра salad салат situation місце salary ЗАРПЛАТА ski лижа salmon лосось smith Коваль salon вітальня soccer футбол socialism соціалізм saloon бар святилише sanctuary society товариство sausage ковбаса sociology соціологія ЗАОЩАДЖЕННЯ socket ЗАГЛИБЛЕННЯ savings sodium scenario сценарій натрій scenery ДЕКОРАЦІЇ sofa диван scepticism скептицизм soldier солдат scholar solicitor філолог-класик юрисконсульт scientist solution вчений розчинення screening МАСКУВАННЯ НАЩАДОК son script почерк sophistication витонченість ПІНИТИСЯ scum source верхів'я secretion секреція sovereignty володарювання sector сектор speaker ДИКТОР sediment specification ДЕТАЛЬ осад seller продавець specimen взірець seminar семінар speculation МІРКУВАННЯ senate рада spelling правопис sensitivity чутливість sphere глобус sergeant сержант spider павук servant слуга spokesman представник ПІДНОС server sponsorship фінансування ЗБОРИ ЕСКАДРА session squadron setting stability стабільність оправа settlement stadium СТАЛІЙ урегулювання ЖОРСТОКІСТЬ staircase сходи severity stairs каналізація східці sewage шах **ПОЗИШЯ** shah stance shareholder АКЦІОНЕР statement заява sheep баран statistics статистика sheet statue аркуш статуя shelf statute попиня статут shipping вантаження steward стюард shirt stimulation стимулювання сорочка stimulus shoe підкова стимул ПАЛАНТИН shortage ДЕФІЦИТ stole shorts зберігання труси storage si ci stove теплиця significance striker значення страйкар

student thickness студент товщина studio телестудія thigh стегно submission пред'явлення thing річ vcпix threat загроза success послідовність succession threshold поріг successor наступник timetable розклад sufferer страждальник timing розклад suitcase toilet КОСТЮМ валізка summit tolerance толерантність вершина sunshine радість topic тема supermarket супермаркет tourism туризм supervisor КОНТРОЛЕР tourist турист supplier постачальник tractor трактор ПРИХИЛЬНИК supporter tradition переказ surgeon хірург tragedy трагедія surgery хірургія trainee стажер surroundings ОКОЛИШ training виховання МАРКШЕЙЛЕР surveyor transaction справа виживання ПЕРЕПИСУВАННЯ survival transcription sweater transformation 3MIHA светр transition sword меч перехід КОНСПЕКТ syllabus trauma травма symbol traveller КОМІВОЯЖЕР символ ПОДОРОЖ symmetry симетрія travelling symptom ПРИЗНАК treasurer хранитель syndrome синдром treasury скарбниця syntax синтаксис treaty договір synthesis синтез triangle трикутник system устрій tribe покоління tariff розцінка tribunal суд taxation trophy трофей оподаткування teacher штани викладач trousers television телебачення ПУХЛИНА tumour telly телевізор гімнаст turner temple СКРОНЯ tvre шина tennis теніс НЕВІДОМІСТЬ uncertainty tenure володіння uncle дядько termination результат unemployment безробіття unification terminology термінологія уніфікація terrace тераса unit блок спільність terrain земний unity universe KOCMOC territory галузь text текст unrest **ЗАВОРУШЕННЯ** НАПОЛЕГЛИВІСТЬ theatre театр urgency theme тема us нас theory теорія utterance ДИКЦІЯ therapy терапія vale Кювет thesis ДИСЕРТАЦІЯ validation затвердження

validity ОБГРУНТОВАНІСТЬ year рік valley долина youngster юнак

valve клапан

variance РОЗЫЖНІСТЬ

variation варіант vat чан vector вектор

животіння vegetation vehicle ΑΠΑΡΑΤ vendor продавець

ventilation вентиляція verb дієслово verdict вердикт version версія КОРАБЕЛЬ vessel vicar вікарій ОКРУГА vicinity victim жертва victor переможець victory звитяга villa віппа violence насильство virus вірус visitor гість vocabulary словник voltage НАПРУГА

wallet wardrobe warfare weapon week wicket width willingness window wool wording worker

works

writer

yacht

yarn

writing

workshop

vulnerability

waiter

walker

тиждень турнікет широта готовність вітрина вовна редакція робітник завод майстерня автор НАПИС

яхта

пряжа

уразливість

ПІДНОС

гаманець

гардероб

ходак

війна

зброя

# Adverbs (Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) - English)

автоматично automatically actively активно альтернативно alternatively багатообіцяюче hopefully беззастережно implicitly безмовно silently безперервно continuously безпечно safely благополучно safely близько closely важливо importantly ввічливо politely взаємно mutually визначено definitely випадково occasionally виразно distinctly високо highly відверто openly відкрито openly вілносно comparatively

відповідно accordingly відчутно aloud вільно loosely власне properly вряди-годи occasionally narrowly вузько гарненько properly глибоко profoundly гнівно angrily aloud голосно гордо proudly ДБАЙЛИВО carefully ДЕ-НЕБУДЬ somewhere лесь somewhere **ЛЕШЕВО** commonly лійсно actually

Reference: Webster's Online Dictionary (www.websters-online-dictionary.org)

**ДОКЛАДНО** narrowly обов'язково necessarily досі hitherto одночасно simultaneously драматично dramatically окремо separately **ОРИГІНАЛЬНО** дуже highly originally економно economically особисто personally ЗАЗДАЛЕГІДЬ ОСОБЛИВО previously specially ЗАЗДЕЛЕГІДЬ previously офіційно officially замислено thoughtfully очевидно clearly ЗАНАДТО too ПЕРЕВАЖНО principally зараз presently повторно repeatedly звичайно mostly ПОГАНО commonly здебільшого mostly по-друге secondly злегка slightly по-перше firstly зовсім порівну utterly evenly зрештою ultimately по-різному differently **ЗРІДКА** постійно continuously occasionally faster індивідуально individually постник іноді occasionally thirdly по-третє інстинктивно instinctively correctly правильно конкретно specifically ПРОСТО commonly КРУТО abruptly протилежно conversely лагілно gently професіонально professionally легко easily публічно openly лелве narrowly раніше previously ледь scarcely раптово abruptly мислено mentally ретельно closely мовчки silently саме exactly свідомо можливо possibly consciously м'яко softly свіжо freshly **НАДЗВИЧАЙНО** utterly сердито angrily надто too серйозно seriously належно properly спершу primarily НАПЕВНО definitely спеціально specially насилу спокійно calmly scarcely насправді actually originally спочатку НЕГАЙНО сприятливо highly promptly незабаром presently старанно carefully НЕМИНУЧЕ necessarily стійко steadily **НЕОДМІННО** necessarily суворо severely неохоче reluctantly також too **НЕПЕРЕДБАЧЕНО** unexpectedly тепер presently нервово технічно nervously technically ОНЖІН gently тихо quietly ніколи тісно never closely нормально normally точно exactly ОБЕРЕЖНО closely gently **уважно** 

aloud уголос successfully успішно фактично actually фізично physically холодно coldly цілком duly часом occasionally часто frequently чітко expressly швидко promptly широко widely щасливо fortunately щедро largely щиро sincerely closely щільно щорічно annually щохвилини momentarily як how як-небудь somehow якось somehow якраз exactly ясно clearly

# Adverbs (English - Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script))

abruptly раптово accidentally випадково accordingly відповідно actively активно actually дійсно aloud голосно alternatively альтернативно angrily гнівно шорічно annually automatically автоматично broadly широко calmly спокійно carefully старанно casually випадково clearly очевидно closely близько

coldly холодно ЗВИЧАЙНО commonly comparatively відносно consciously свідомо continuously безперервно conversely протилежно correctly правильно definitely визначено differently по-різному distinctly виразно dramatically драматично НАЛЕЖНО duly easily легко economically економно evenly порівну очевидно evidently exactly точно expressly чітко extensively широко faster постник firstly по-перше сприятливо fortunately frequently часто freshly свіжо gently лагідно highly високо hitherto лосі

hopefully багатообіцяюче

how як

implicitly беззастережно importantly важливо individually індивідуально instinctively інстинктивно largely щедро ЗЛЕГКА lightly вільно loosely mentally мислено mildly м'яко momentarily шохвилини звичайно mostly mutually взаємно narrowly вузько necessarily НЕМИНУЧЕ nervously нервово never ніколи normally нормально

очевидно

Reference: Webster's Online Dictionary (www.websters-online-dictionary.org)

obviously

occasionally випадково officially офіційно ПУБЛІЧНО openly спочатку originally personally особисто фізично physically ввічливо politely possibly можливо presently зараз ЗАЗДАЛЕГІДЬ

previously primarily спершу principally ПЕРЕВАЖНО professionally професіонально profoundly глибоко НЕГАЙНО promptly properly ПРАВИЛЬНО proudly гордо publicly публічно спокійно quietly reluctantly неохоче repeatedly повторно safely безпечно scarcely ледве secondly по-друге separately окремо seriously серйозно severely суворо silently безмовно simultaneously одночасно sincerely щиро slightly злегка ОЗК'М softly somehow як-небудь somewhere ДЕ-НЕБУДЬ

specifically конкретно стійко steadily successfully успішно technically технічно thirdly по-третє thoughtfully замислено too дуже ultimately зрештою НЕПЕРЕДБАЧЕНО unexpectedly usually звичайно

зовсім

широко

ОСОБЛИВО

specially

utterly

widely

### Adjectives (Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script) - English)

АБСОЛЮТНИЙ

stark агресивний aggressive АДЕКВАТНИЙ adequate аналітичний analytical **АНАЛОГІЧНИЙ** analogous анальний anal анонімний anonymous **АНОРМАЛЬНИЙ** abnormal артистичний artistic archaeological археологічний architectural архітектурний **АСОШЙОВАНИЙ** associated атмосферний atmospheric АТОМНИЙ nuclear багатообіцяючий promising cheerful бадьорий бажаний desirable байдужий indifferent барвистий colourful батьківський parental безвихідний hopeless безглузлий pointless бездіяльний passive безжалісний ruthless беззвучний dumb безконечний infinite безмежний infinite безнадійний hopeless безпосередній immediate unprecedented безпрецедентний

безсловесний dumb безсумнівний certain безумовний implicit безцільний pointless береговий coastal біблійний biblical біологічний biological божевільний daft

віломий боязкий fearful famous брилкий ugly вілповілальний liable filthy брудний відповідний adequate reproductive брутальний brutal відтворювальний будівельний constructive відчутний sensible бюрократичний bureaucratic вірний certain вагомий valid вірогідний probable важливий substantial віртуальний virtual валютний monetary віршований poetic eternal ваш vours вічний ввічливий civil властивий inherent великий внутрішній internal vast величезний moist immense вогкий величний proud вокальний vocal вередливий naughty вологий moist hostile веселий cheerful ворожий вза€мний mutual впевнений certain electoral виборчий вразливий susceptible measured виважений вродливий handsome beneficial вигілний всебічний comprehensive видатний remarkable всеосяжний comprehensive визначний remarkable всесвітній global втішний використаний used enjoyable виміряний measured вузький petty вимушений reluctant галасливий noisy винен guilty географічний geographical винний guilty геологічний geological винуватий guilty гилкий opposed винятковий exceptional глобальний global casual гнівний випадковий angry випробуваний гнітючий approved depressing виразний expressive гнучкий versatile виробничий industrial голий naked naked високий tall голослівний виступаючий outstanding голосовий vocal delicate витончений гордий proud витягнутий drawn гордовитий proud educational виховний господарський economic вишуканий distinguished готовий prepared гравітаційний відбірний selective gravitational граматичний grammatical відведений drawn straightforward граничний marginal відвертий віддалений грізний formidable remote відкритий overt громадянський civil віллюлний remote грошовий monetary вілмінний different грубий brutal

vocal ЕКСТРАОРДИНАРНИЙ extraordinary гучний old ЕКСПЕНТРИЧНИЙ bizarre давній ДАЛЬНІЙ remote ЕЛАСТИЧНИЙ flexible двадцятий twentieth delicate елегантний electrical twelfth дванадиятий електричний **ДВОЇСТИЙ** dual electronic електронний лев'ятий ninth елементарний elementary **ЕМОШЙНИЙ** делікатний delicate emotional ЕНЕРГЕТИЧНИЙ democratic демократичний energetic ЕНЕРГІЙНИЙ дерев'яний wooden aggressive ДЕРЖАВНИЙ етнічний political ethnic ДЕСПОТИЧНИЙ ЖАДАНИЙ arbitrary desirable **ДЕТАЛЬНИЙ** detailed ЖАЛЮГІЛНИЙ sorrv defective ЖАХАЮЧИЙ **ДЕФЕКТНИЙ** terrific cheap ЖАХЛИВИЙ enormous дешевий деякий certain жвавий vivid дзвінкий vocal alive живий **ДИВНИЙ** житловий residential odd marvellous viable дивовижний життєздатний дисциплінарний disciplinary ЖІНКОПОДІБНИЙ feminine дихальний respiratory feminine жіночий дійовий valid жоден none ЛІЙСНИЙ virtual жолний none діючий ЖОНАТИЙ alive married жорстокий charitable добродійний outrageous ЗАБОРОНЕНИЙ довільний arbitrary illegal довічний eternal забутий forgotten contractual договірний ЗАГАЛЬНИЙ global odd **ДОЛАТКОВИЙ** загальнодоступний popular ЗАГАЛЬНОПРИЙНЯТИЙ orthodox дозволений permitted ДОКЛАДНИЙ ЗАГРОЗЛИВИЙ explicit ugly допитливий curious задовільний satisfactory **ДОРОГИЙ** expensive задоволений glad досвідчений skilled заздрісний jealous достатній ample **ЗАЗНАЄТЬСЯ** experienced доцільний advisable ЗАЙВИЙ odd **ДРАТІВЛИВИЙ** impatient зяйнятий occupied **ДРЕСИРОВАНИЙ** trained законодавчий legislative дуоденальний duodenal ЗАКОРДОННИЙ foreign ДУРНИЙ daft ЗАКОРЕНІЛИЙ confirmed ЗАМЕРЗЛИЙ frozen дурник silly **ЗАМОЖНИЙ** substantial spiritual духовний егоїстичний selfish заморожений frozen **ЗАРЕЄСТРОВАНИЙ** екзотичний exotic registered ЗАРОЗУМІЛИЙ економічний economic arrogant ЗАСМУЧЕНИЙ експериментальний experimental sorry

ЗАШКАВЛЕНИЙ engaged історичний historic ЗАЧАРУВАННЯ charming істотний substantial ЗБАЛАНСОВАНИЙ skilled balanced кваліфікований збудливий inflammatory кишковий intestinal ЗВИЧАЙНИЙ conventional кількісний quantitative кінний звільнений immune mounted КІНШЕВИЙ зворушливий pathetic eventual ЗВ'ЯЗАНИЙ coherent клінічний clinical зв'язний coherent кмітливий intelligent згубний fatal колишній old здивований surprised колоніальний colonial здурілий кольоровий coloured silly **ЗЕМЕЛЬНИЙ** компетентний landed qualified ЗЕМЛЕРОБСЬКИЙ agricultural комунальний communal ЗІБРАНИЙ collected КОНКУРЕНТНИЙ competitive ЗІПСОВАНИЙ naughty КОНКУРУЮЧИЙ competitive злий wicked конструктивний constructive зловісний consultative disastrous консультативний злочинний КОНПЕНТРОВАНИЙ guilty concentrated **ЗМЕНШЕНИЙ** reduced корисний profitable **ЗМУЖНІЛИЙ** корпоративний ripe corporate зняменитий famous коштовний costly КРАЛЕНИЙ วบจบบหหั considerable stolen **ЗНЕВІРЕНИЙ** КРАЙНІЙ hopeless marginal зовнишний КРИЖАНИЙ foreign icy золотий golden крихкий fragile **ЗОЛОТИСТИЙ** golden КРИЧУЩИЙ noisy **ЗОСЕРЕЛЖЕНИЙ** collected культурний cultural **ЗРІВНОВАЖЕНИЙ** balanced КУМУЛЯТИВНИЙ cumulative КУРЙОЗНИЙ curious зрілий ripe **ЗРОЗУМІЛИЙ** understandable ламкий fragile **ЗРУЧНИЙ** practical патентний latent **ЗЧЕПЛЕНИЙ** coherent легковажний daft ідеологічний ideological липкий sticky іліотський daft лихий wicked іменний лінгвістичний registered linguistic імовірний лінійний probable linear ІМУННИЙ immune літературний literary індиферентний indifferent літній elderly industrial індустріальний льодовий icv іноземний foreign льодовиковий icy інтегрований integrated льоляний icy інтенсивний люб'язний intense polite інформаційний informative лютий wicked інший different магічний magical іронічний ironic МАГНЕТИЧНИЙ magnetic

магнітний successive magnetic наступний few НАТЯГНУТИЙ forced мапо **МАЛОВАЖНИЙ** indifferent scientific науковий НЕАДЕКВАТНИЙ МАРНОТРАТНИЙ luxurious inadequate mathematical НЕБАГАТО few математичний материнський maternal небажаний undesirable **НЕВБЛАГАННИЙ МЕРЗОТНИЙ** filthy grim милий НЕВДАЛИЙ pleasant unhappy милосердний charitable невеликий modest мимовільний НЕВИКОНАНИЙ unconscious outstanding мирний невід'ємний pacific inherent мистецький НЕВІДКЛАДНИЙ artistic immediate мінімальний minimal невідповідний inappropriate міністерський ministerial невловимий elusive місцевий indigenous невпевнений unsure міський civic негайний immediate міпний substantial НЕДАВНІЙ latter мнимий НЕДБАЛИЙ casual alleged wicked мовознавчий linguistic недобрий мовчазний dumb недоречний irrelevant fashionable cheap модний недорогий модульний modular недосконалий defective можливий possible НЕЛОСТАТНІЙ insufficient НЕДОУМКУВАТИЙ daft молекулярний molecular неефективний inefficient молодий youthful НЕЗАЙНЯТИЙ МОНЕТАРНИЙ monetary odd монетний незаконний illegal monetary **НЕЗАХИЩЕНИЙ** муніципальний municipal naked **НЕЗБАГНЕННИЙ** МУСКУЛИСТИЙ muscular mysterious НЕЗВИЧАЙНИЙ мускульний muscular uncommon м'язистий muscular незвичний uncommon м'язовий muscular awkward незграбний м'який delicate нездатний unable НАВЧАЛЬНИЙ educational незличенний countless НАВЧЕНИЙ trained незмінний eternal нагромаджений cumulative незнайомий unfamiliar НАЛЗВИЧАЙНИЙ บทบรบลโ незначний petty надійний reliable незручний awkward НАЛМІРНИЙ unreasonable некоректний incorrect НАЙБЛИЖЧИЙ immediate illegal нелегальний належний imminent adequate неминучий НАЛЯКАНИЙ fearful НЕМОЛОДИЙ old наочний descriptive ненормальний abnormal **НАПОЛЕГЛИВИЙ НЕОБІЗНАНИЙ** unfamiliar aggressive НАПРУЖЕНИЙ необмежений unlimited intense народний popular необов'язковий optional

необхілний неодружений НЕОСВІЧЕНИЙ неосяжний неохочий неоціненний непарний **НЕПОРУШНИЙ** непотрібний непохитний неправдоподібний НЕПРАВИЛЬНИЙ непридатний НЕПРИЄМНИЙ неприйнятний непритомний нераціональний НЕРЕАЛЬНИЙ НЕРЕГУЛЯРНИЙ нерозсудливий **НЕРОЗУМНИЙ** НЕСАМОВИТИЙ НЕСВІЛОМИЙ нескінченний неслухняний НЕСПЛАЧЕНИЙ неспокійний несправедливий НЕСПРАВНИЙ неспроможний нестерпний несхожий нетерплячий неточний НЕЧЕСНИЙ нешасливий нещасний неясний ніжний німий ніхто нішо ніякий новий ОБГРУНТОВАНИЙ ОБДАРОВАНИЙ

required unmarried ignorant immense unwilling invaluable odd eternal unnecessary rocky unlikely incorrect unsuitable ugly unacceptable unconscious irrational imaginary casual unreasonable unreasonable outrageous unconscious endless naughty outstanding troubled unfair defective unable intolerable unlike impatient incorrect unfair unhappy unfortunate unclear delicate dumb none none none vouthful valid talented

ОБДУМАНИЙ ОБ'ЄЛНАНИЙ ОБІЗНАНИЙ ОБЛАСНИЙ обмежений обов'язковий обопільний **ОБРАЗЛИВИЙ** ОБРАЗНИЙ ОБРОБЛЮВАНИЙ ОБУМОВЛЕНИЙ обурливий ОБШИРНИЙ общинний огидний оголений одночасний одружений ОДУХОТВОРЕНИЙ оперативний ОПЕРАЦІЙНИЙ оптимістичний ортодоксальний освітній ОСЛАБЛЕНИЙ основний особистий особливий останній ОСТАТОЧНИЙ охоплюючий ОЧЕВИЛНИЙ пам'ятний папський парламентський пасивний ПАТЕТИЧНИЙ певний ПЕДАГОГІЧНИЙ ПЕРЕВАЖАЮЧИЙ ПЕРЕВІРЕНИЙ ПЕРЕДБАЧУВАНИЙ передчасний ПЕРЕКОНАНИЙ ПЕРЕМОЖЕНИЙ ПЕРЕПОВНЕНИЙ

studied associated informed regional finite compulsory mutual outrageous imaginative cultural conventional outrageous extensive communal filthy naked simultaneous married spiritual operational operational optimistic orthodox educational depressed underlying personal peculiar latter eventual comprehensive overt memorable papal parliamentary passive pathetic certain educational prevailing approved supposed premature confirmed beaten packed

transitional ПРАЦЮЮЧИЙ operational перехідний recurrent ПРЕВАЛЮЮЧИЙ prevailing періодичний delicious персональний personal прекрасний ПИХАТИЙ arrogant прибутковий profitable ПІЛВІСНИЙ suspended ПРИВАБЛИВИЙ appealing підвішений ПРИГНОБЛЕНИЙ suspended depressed ПРИГОЛОМИІЛИВИЙ ПІДГОТОВЛЕНИЙ prepared stunning ПІДДОСЛІДНИЙ experimental приємний pleasant підозрілий suspicious прийнятий accepted пілхожий ПРИЙНЯТНИЙ qualified reasonable Пішаний sandy прикметник adjective побитий ПРИМУСОВИЙ beaten compulsory поверховий superficial ПРИМХЛИВИЙ naughty повчальний informative ПРИНАДНИЙ tempting пов'язаний related ПРИРОДЖЕНИЙ inherent подвійний dual ПРИРОДНИЙ indigenous подібний analogous intrinsic притаманний поетичний favourable poetic прихильний поживний substantial прихований latent поінформований aware проблематичний problematic політичний political tentative пробний помилковий faulty продуктивний productive industrial помірний modest промисловий ПОНУРИЙ ПРОПОРШЙНИЙ proportional gloomy ПРОПОРШОНАЛЬНИЙ ПОПЕРЕЛНІЙ tentative proportional ПРОСТОРИЙ популярний popular ample порівняний comparable spatial просторовий порочний ПРОСТРОЧЕНИЙ vicious outstanding порядний противний respectable opposed ПРОТИЛЕЖНИЙ послідовний consecutive opposed постійний settled професійний occupational прямий straightforward потворний ugly ПОТЕРПІЛИЙ injured психіатричний psychiatric пофарбований coloured ПСИХІЧНИЙ mental ПОХМУРИЙ bleak психологічний psychological почесний honourable ПУБЛІЧНИЙ overt поширений ПУСТОТЛИВИЙ prevailing naughty пошкоджений faulty радий glad поштовий postal радісний glad regional пояснювальний explanatory районний youthful правдивий honest ранній правдоподібний расовий racial probable ПРАВОВІРНИЙ orthodox раціональний rational православний orthodox реалістичний realistic pragmatic jealous прагматичний ревнивий ПРАКТИЧНИЙ economic регіональний regional

profitable рентабельний сирий moist респектабельний respectable сільський rural ретельний thorough сільськогосподарський agricultural решидивний recurrent скелястий rocky ризикований risky скептичний sceptical ритмічний rhythmic скромний modest awkward рідкий rare СКРУТНИЙ рідкісний rare слабкий delicate varied СЛАВЕТНИЙ famous різний varied СЛАВНИЙ famous різноманітний різносторонній versatile словесний verbal РШІУЧИЙ drastic службовий ministerial favourable робочий operational слушний родючий productive сонячний solar розбещений filthy сопіологічний sociological розбірливий coherent спілий ripe **РОЗГНІВАНИЙ** спільний corporate angry **РОЗДРАТОВАНИЙ** confused angry сплутаний розкішний costly сполучений connected розмаїтий varied споріднений related розрізнений odd справедливий equitable sensible valid розсудливий справжній розтягнутий lengthy сприйнятливий sensitive розумний intelligent сприятливий profitable розумовий mental сталий settled used розчарований disappointed старий Рудуватий sandv старовинний old руйнівний destructive стародавній old рулонний endless статевий sexual ample статистичний statistical рясний самовпевнений стійкий resistant arrogant самоврядний municipal стомлений beaten свавільний сторонній foreign arbitrary свідомий conscious страшний terrible світовий global стриманий measured святий varied holy строкатий святиня holy структурний structural свяшенний holy суб'єктивний subjective сексуальний sexual суворий rigorous selective селективний iudicial судовий сентиментальний sentimental cumulative сукупний doubtful сумнівний сердитий angry середньовічний medieval схвалений approved СХИЛЬНИЙ сильний intense liable сильноліючий drastic схілний eastern синтяксичний syntactic таємничий mysterious

tactical тактичний talented талановитий settled твердий твій yours constructive творчий тендітний delicate теологічний theological тепловий thermal терапевтичний therapeutic термальний thermal термічний thermal технологічний technological тимчасовий casual тихий pacific токсичний toxic точний rigorous трагедійний tragic трагічний tragic traditional традиційний тривалий extended тривіальний trivial тубільний indigenous тямущий comprehensive skilled умілий conventional умовний унікальний unique packed **упакований** interested упереджений sensitive уразливий balanced урівноважений ministerial урядовий vocal усний успішний useful установлений mounted ущільнений packed уявний imaginary фактичний virtual факультативний optional фатальний fatal feudal феодальний physiological фізіологічний financial фінансовий фокусний focal фотографічний photographic functional функціональний

хибний химерний хірургічний холодний художній церковний цивілізований пивільний пиклічний пікавий пілюший цінний чарівний чемний чесний чималий чинний численний чудернацький чудний чудовий чужий чуйний чуткий чутливий чуттєвий шалений ШАНОВНИЙ широкий шкідливий шлунковий штормовий штучний шумливий шумний щедрий ширий юнацький юний явний ядерний яскравий ясний

faulty bizarre surgical icy artistic spiritual civil civic periodic interesting beneficial costly glamorous civil straightforward considerable alive numerous odd odd immense foreign alive sensitive susceptible sensitive outrageous honourable vast harmful gastric troubled artificial noisy noisy charitable honest youthful youthful overt nuclear noisy explicit

emotional

хвилюючий

# Adjectives (English -Ukrainian (Cyrillic Script))

abnormal ненормальний accepted прийнятий accidental випадковий adequate АЛЕКВАТНИЙ adjective прикметник advisable доцільний ЕНЕРГІЙНИЙ aggressive agricultural сільськогосподарський alive бадьорий alleged мнимий

ample достатній анальний anal АНАЛОГІЧНИЙ analogous аналітичний analytical

angry

artistic

анонімний anonymous **ЗВОРУШЛИВИЙ** appealing approved випробуваний arbitrary ПРИМХЛИВИЙ archaeological археологічний architectural архітектурний самовпевнений arrogant artificial штучний мистецький

гнівний

АСОЦІЙОВАНИЙ associated дивний astonishing atmospheric атмосферний atomic атомний aware обізнаний

awkward незграбний balanced ЗБАЛАНСОВАНИЙ beaten ПЕРЕМОЖЕНИЙ beneficial вигілний

біблійний biblical biological біологічний bizarre ЕКСЦЕНТРИЧНИЙ

bleak відкритий brutal брутальний bureaucratic бюрократичний casual НЕРЕГУЛЯРНИЙ certain певний charitable шедрий

charming ЗАЧАРУВАННЯ недорогий cheap checked ПЕРЕВІРЕНИЙ веселий

cheerful

civic громадянський civil громадянський clinical клінічний coastal береговий зчеплений coherent ЗІБРАНИЙ collected colonial колоніальний coloured КОЛЬОРОВИЙ colourful барвистий комунальний communal comparable порівняний КОНКУРУЮЧИЙ competitive complementary лолатковий comprehensive всеосяжний

compulsory обов'язковий concentrated КОНЦЕНТРОВАНИЙ confirmed ЗАКОРЕНІЛИЙ

confused сплутаний connected сполучений conscious свідомий consecutive посліловний considerable важливий constructive будівельний consultative консультативний contractual договірний conventional умовний corporate корпоративний costly дорогий countless НЕЗЛІЧЕННИЙ cultural культурний

КУМУЛЯТИВНИЙ cumulative КУРЙОЗНИЙ curious daft НЕЛОУМКУВАТИЙ

НЕСПРАВНИЙ defective delicate делікатний delicious прекрасний delightful чудовий democratic демократичний ОСЛАБЛЕНИЙ depressed

depressing гнітючий descriptive наочний

desirable ЖАДАНИЙ extensive широкий destructive руйнівний extraordinary ДИВОВИЖНИЙ **ДЕТАЛЬНИЙ** detailed factual фактичний ВІДОМИЙ different відмінний famous розчарований fashionable disappointed модний disastrous 3ГЛРНИЙ fatal фатальний disciplinary дисциплінарний faulty хибний favourable прихильний disgusting огидний distinguished fearful боязкий видатний doubtful підозрілий feminine ЖІНКОПОДІБНИЙ РІШУЧИЙ drastic feudal феодальний drawn витягнутий few мало dreadful жахливий filthy брудний ДВОЇСТИЙ financial dual фінансовий ПІДОЗРІЛИЙ finite dubious обмежений dumb німий flexible гнучкий duodenal дуоденальний focal фокусний forbidden eastern східний заборонений НАТЯГНУТИЙ economic господарський forced educational виховний foreign іноземний elderly літній forgotten забутий electoral formidable виборчий величезний electrical електричний fragile ламкий electronic електронний frozen заморожений elegant епегантний functional функціональний elementary елементарний gastric шлунковий geographical elusive невловимий географічний embarrassing скрутний geological геологічний emotional ЕМОПІЙНИЙ glad задоволений endless незліченний glamorous чарівний ЕНЕРГЕТИЧНИЙ energetic global всесвітній **ЗАЙНЯТИЙ** ПОНУРИЙ engaged gloomy втішний золотистий enjovable golden enormous величезний gorgeous розкішний equitable справедливий governmental урядовий eternal вічний grammatical граматичний ethnic етнічний gravitational гравітаційний випадковий НЕВБЛАГАННИЙ eventual grim evident очевидний guilty випеп exceptional винятковий handsome значний екзотичний harmful шкідливий exotic **ДОРОГИЙ** historic expensive історичний experienced ДОСВІДЧЕНИЙ historical історичний експериментальний священний experimental holv explanatory пояснювальний honest щирий explicit ДОКЛАДНИЙ honourable почесний expressive виразний hopeless безвихідний extended тривалий hostile ворожий

НЕЛАВНІЙ huge величезний latter icy льодяний legislative законодавчий ideological ідеологічний lengthy розтягнутий НЕОСВІЧЕНИЙ ignorant liable відповідальний illegal нелегальний limited обмежений imaginary НЕРЕАЛЬНИЙ linear лінійний imaginative ОБРАЗНИЙ linguistic лінгвістичний immediate безпосередній literary літературний immense величезний luxurious МАРНОТРАТНИЙ imminent магічний неминучий magical МАГНЕТИЧНИЙ immune звільнений magnetic ДРАТІВЛИВИЙ граничний impatient marginal ЖОНАТИЙ implicit безумовний married inadequate НЕАДЕКВАТНИЙ marvellous ливовижний inappropriate невідповідний maternal материнський incorrect математичний некоректний mathematical indifferent meaningless байдужий безглуздий indigenous measured місцевий виважений industrial виробничий medieval середньовічний inefficient НЕЕФЕКТИВНИЙ memorable пам'ятний infinite безконечний mental ПСИХІЧНИЙ inflammatory збудливий minimal мінімальний informative інформаційний ministerial міністерський informed ОБІЗНАНИЙ mistaken ПОМИЛКОВИЙ inherent властивий modest невеликий ПОТЕРПІЛИЙ iniured modular модульний inland внутрішній moist вогкий inner внутрішній molecular молекулярний НЕДОСТАТНІЙ валютний insufficient monetary КІННИЙ integrated інтегрований mounted МІСЬКИЙ intelligent кмітливий municipal МУСКУЛИСТИЙ intense інтенсивний muscular запікавлений interested mutual взаємний НЕЗБАГНЕННИЙ цікавий interesting mysterious НЕЗАХИЩЕНИЙ internal внутрішній naked intestinal ЗІПСОВАНИЙ кишковий naughty intolerable нестерпний ninth дев'ятий intrinsic справжній noisy галасливий invaluable нішо неоціненний none **АТОМНИЙ** ironic іронічний nuclear irrational. нераціональний numerous численний irrelevant недоречний occasional випадковий jealous ревнивий occupational професійний judicial судовий occupied зайнятий known odd розрізнений відомий landed **ЗЕМЕЛЬНИЙ** old старий latent латентний operational оперативний

rational opposed гилкий раціональний optimistic оптимістичний realistic реалістичний факультативний ПРИЙНЯТНИЙ optional reasonable ЗАГАЛЬНОПРИЙНЯТИЙ orthodox recurrent періодичний outdoor зовнишний reduced зменшений outrageous ЖОРСТОКИЙ redundant ЗАЙВИЙ outstanding виступаючий regional ОБЛАСНИЙ відвертий registered іменний overt pacific МИРНИЙ related споріднений ПЕРЕПОВНЕНИЙ packed reliable надійний papal папський reluctant вимушений parental батьківський remarkable видатний parliamentary парламентський remote вілдалений passive бездіяльний reproductive відтворювальний pathetic зворушливий required необхідний peculiar ОСОБИСТИЙ residential житловий periodic періодичний resistant стійкий ЗНАЧНИЙ permitted дозволений respectable ОСОБИСТИЙ дихальний personal respiratory невеликий responsive petty чуйний photographic фотографічний ритмічний rhythmic фізіологічний physiological rigorous ретельний pleasant милий зрілий ripe віршований poetic risky ризикований непохитний pointless безглуздий rocky ввічливий сільський polite rural безжалісний political **ДЕРЖАВНИЙ** ruthless загальнодоступний sandy Пішаний popular possible можливий satisfactory ДОСТАТНІЙ postal поштовий sceptical скептичний **ЗРУЧНИЙ** scientific practical науковий pragmatic прагматичний selective відбірний егоїстичний premature передчасний selfish готовий sensible відчутний prepared ПОШИРЕНИЙ sensitive prevailing сприйнятливий probable імовірний sentimental сентиментальний problematic проблематичний settled сталий productive продуктивний sexual статевий вигілний profitable sexv сексуальний багатообіцяючий дурник promising silly ПРОПОРШЙНИЙ simultaneous proportional одночасний proud величний skilled **ДОСВІДЧЕНИЙ** psychiatric психіатричний sociological сопіологічний psychological психологічний сонячний solar qualified КОМПЕТЕНТНИЙ ЗАСМУЧЕНИЙ sorry quantitative кількісний spacious всеосяжний racial расовий spatial просторовий rare рідкий spiritual духовний

Reference: Webster's Online Dictionary (www.websters-online-dictionary.org)

АБСОЛЮТНИЙ stark статистичний statistical sticky пипкий stolen КРАДЕНИЙ straightforward відвертий structural структурний ОБДУМАНИЙ studied ПРИГОЛОМШЛИВИЙ stunning суб'єктивний

 subjective
 суб'єктивний

 substantial
 важливий

 successive
 наступний

 superb
 чудовий

 superficial
 поверховий

 supposed
 ПЕРЕДБАЧУВАНИЙ

surgical хірургічний surprised здивований susceptible вразливий suspended підвішений suspicious підозрілий syntactic синтаксичний tactical тактичний ОБДАРОВАНИЙ talented

tall високий technological технологічний tempting ПРИНАЛНИЙ ПОПЕРЕДНІЙ tentative terrible страшний terrific ЖАХЛИВИЙ теологічний theological терапевтичний therapeutic тепловий thermal thorough ретельний toxic токсичний traditional традиційний tragic трагедійний trained ДРЕСИРОВАНИЙ transitional перехідний

troubled HECПОКІЙНИЙ
twelfth дванадцятий
twentieth двадцятий
ugly бридкий
unable нездатний
unacceptable неприйнятний

величезний

**НЕЗНАЧНИЙ** 

unaffected щирий unclear неясний

tremendous

trivial

uncommon
unconscious
underlying
understandable
undesirable
uneasy
unfair
unfamiliar
unfortunate
unhappy
unique
unlawful
unlike
unlikely
unlimited

unmarried

unnecessary

unprecedented

unreasonable

unsuitable

unsure
unusual
unwanted
unwilling
urban
used
useful
valid
varied
vast
verbal
versatile
viable

vicious virtual

vivid

vocal

wicked

wooden

youthful

vours

НАДЗВИЧАЙНИЙ МИМОВІЛЬНИЙ ОСНОВНИЙ ЗРОЗУМІЛИЙ небажаний незручний несправедливий невнайомий НЕВДАЛИЙ унікальний незаконний несхожий

неправдоподібний

безмежний

неодружений

непотрібний

НАДМІРНИЙ

неприлатний

безпрецедентний

невпевнений ДИВНИЙ небажаний НЕОХОЧИЙ міський старий корисний вагомий різний широкий усний гнучкий життєздатний ЗЛИЙ

віртуальний

дерев'яний

жвавий голосовий

злий

вані

юний